


Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Eric Renker, Pharm.D. 
Director of Pharmacy Services 
Florida Hospital Tampa 
3100 East Fletcher Avenue 
Tampa, Florida 33613 

RE: Request for Declaratory Statement 

Dear Mr. Renker: 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Tuesday, October 8, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. The meeting begins at 
9:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.floridaspharmacy.gov/meeting-information/upcoming-meetings/. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

imes Cumbie 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FlorldasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

YOUTIJBE: fldoh 

HEALTh 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

September 18, 2013 

Sin 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 

FLORIDA HOSPITAL CLERK 

TAMPA DATE SEP 0 6 2013 

The ski/I to heal. The spirit to 

5 September 2013 

Petition for Declaratory Statement Before the Florida Board of Pharmacy 

This petition s in reference to Honda Ru'e 64B16-28605 entitled C'ass fl Pharmacies — 

Automated Distribution and Packaging which discusses the process by which automated systems may be 
used in an sethng. Although there are clear guidelines which establish monitoring and audit 
systems. it is not clear whether immediate supervision of technicians is required. 

The portion of 64B16-25605 which is in question is question is paragraph (4). 
(4) Stocking or Restocking of a Decentralized Automated Medication System. 
(a) Medications in a decentralized Automated Medication System shall be stocked or restocked 
by a pharmadst, registered pharmacy intern, or by a registered pharmacy technician supervised 
by a pharmacist. 
(b) The stocking or restocking of a decentra'ized automated medication system shaU foUow one 
of the following procedures to assure correct medication selection: 
1. A pharmacist shall conduct a daily audit of medications ptaced orto be placed into an 

automated medkation system that includes random sampling. 
2. A bar code verification, electronic verification, or similar verification process shall be utilized 
to assure correct selection of medication placed or to be placed into an automated medication 
system. The utilization of a bar code, electronic, or similar verification technology shall require 
an initial quality assurance vahdation followed by a monthly quality assurance review by a 

pharmacist, 

We request that Rule be reviewed to determine if the process of fifing and 
checking medications which will be placed in an automated dispensing machine by State of Honda 
Registered Pharmacy Technicians and subject to the review required by 64B16-28605(4) may be 
considered within the scope of practice of the Pharmacy Technician separate from the supervision 
requirement of Florida Statute 465 014 

Thank you for your of this 

Sincerely. 44 //f i 
Eric J. Renkér. Pharm D. 
Director of Pharmacy Services 
Office telephone: (813) 61507114 
Office Fax (813) 615-8103 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Loreto Grimaldi 
New York State & Ontario Bars 
COO General Counsel & Regulatory 
MedAvail Technologies Inc. 
6665 Milcreek Drive, Unit #1 
Mississauga, Ontario L5N 5M4 

RE: Automated Pharmacy 

Dear Loreto Grimaldi: 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

September 18, 2013 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Tuesday, October 8, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. The meeting begins at 
9:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http:/Iwww.floridaspharmacy.gov/meeting-information/upcoming-meetings/. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Cumbie 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 • Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

HEALTH 

Sir 



Med BRINGING PHARMACY TO THE CUSTOMER. 

VIA EMAIL AND SUBSEQUENT COURIER 

September 3, 2013 

Mr Mark Whitten 
Executive Director 
Department of Health - Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Bin C-04 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3258 
e. Mark_Whitten@doh.state.fl.us 

Dear Mr. Whitten, 

Re: Board of Pharmacy Meeting - October 8-9, 2013 

My name is Loreto Grimaldi and I am the COO and General Counsel of 
MedAvail Technologies Inc. - a US-owned company that has developed an 
automated, Pharmacist-centered Remote Dispensing / Telepharmacy technology 
that is unique in the world. We would appreciate an opportunity to present our 
solution to the Florida Board of Pharmacy at their upcoming meeting on October 
8 and 9, 2013. In particular, we are seeking an opportunity to provide context 
and perspective as it relates to the "automated pharmacy" rules which we 
understand are to be discussed at the Rules Committee meeting. 

We would greatly appreciate the opportunity at the October meeting to present 
our technology to the full Board, and also to review with the Rules Committee 
the various safety, privacy and security features which we believe allow 
pharmacists to increase patient access and enhance patient care by harmonizing 
world leading automation and technology with the traditional role of the 
pharmacist. Our HIPAA-compliant technology, known as the MedAvail 
MedCenterTM, allows a pharmacist to interact with and dispense medications to a 
patient remotely via our safe and secure remote dispensing vault/kiosk, while 
maintaining direct patient contact through a live, two-way audio and video 
connection. The system requires pharmacist verification of all medication 
dispensed to the patient and preserves the judgement and accountability of the 
pharmacist. 

MedAvaif Technologies Inc. 
I 

6665 Millcreek Drive, Unit 1 Mississauga, ON Canada L5N 5M4 
I 

Telephone: 905.812.0023 
I 

Facsimile: 905.812.0402 
I 

www.MedAvail.com 



Our solution is ideally suited to a variety of deployment scenarios - including 
doctor's clinics, hospital emergency rooms, employer campuses (as an adjunct 
offering to on—site healthcare facilities), and retail locations. We firmly believe, 
based on strong empirical evidence, that increasing access to medications at or 
near the point of care, promotes stronger medication adherence, better patient 
outcomes and decreased healthcare costs 

As you are well aware, the concept of "automated pharmacy systems" is defined 
in Chapter 465 of the Florida Statutes, with additional requirements specified in 
the Regulations Given that the current rules (and proposed 
amendments) are to be discussed at the October Board of Pharmacy meetings. 
We respectfully believe it would be useful to the Committee's and the Board's 
deliberation of the current/proposed rules, to understand our pharmacy kiosk 
technology, and in our view this provides a unique opportunity and forum for 
MedAvail to describe the system, and address any questions or concerns from 
the Board. 

Specific agenda topics and background materials will be made available in 
advance for the Board's prior consideration, however we would look to include 
an overview of the technology (and a video demonstration), a review of how the 
technology fits into both the current Rules and those that are being proposed for 
discussion, and a view on our ideal deployment scenarios in the State of Florida. 

Thank you - we await your kind reply. 

Sincerely, 

L reto Grimaldi 
COO General Counsel & Regulatory 
c. 416-540-3601 
e. lgrirnaldi©medavail.com 

cc: Ed Rickert, Krieg DeVault LLP erickert©kdlegal.com 
Sunny Lalli, RPh, MedAvail Technologies Inc. slalli@MedAvail.com 

I 



ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature CS for SB 248 

2013248er 

1 

2 An act relating to treatment programs for impaired 

3 licensees and applicants; amending s. 456.076, F.S.; 

4 exempting an entity retained by the Department of 

5 Health as an impaired practitioner consultant from 

6 certain licensure requirements; authorizing impaired 

7 practitioner consultants to contract with schools or 

8 programs to provide services to impaired students who 

9 are enrolled for the purpose of preparing for 

10 licensure as a specified health care practitioner or 

11 as a veterinarian; limiting the liability of those 

12 schools or programs when they refer a student to an 

13 impaired practitioner consultant; authorizing each 

14 board and profession within the division to delegate 

15 to its chair or other designee the authority to 

16 determine that an applicant for licensure under its 

17 jurisdiction may be impaired before certifying or 

18 declining to certify an application for licensure; 

19 authorizing the chair or other designee to refer the 

20 applicant to the consultant for an evaluation before 

21 the board certifies or declines to certify the 

22 applicant' s application to the department; tolling the 

23 department' s deadline for approving or denying the 

24 application until the evaluation is completed and the 

25 result of the evaluation and recommendation by the 

26 consultant is communicated to the board by the 

27 consultant if the applicant agrees to be evaluated by 

28 the consultant; requiring the board to certify or 

29 decline to certify the applicant' s application to the 

Page 1 of 13 

CODING: Words jtric]ccn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 



ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature CS for SB 248 

2013248er 

30 department notwithstanding the lack of an evaluation 

31 and recommendation by the consultant if the applicant 

32 declines to be evaluated by the consultant; providing 

33 that the impaired practitioner consultant is the 

34 official custodian of records relating to the referral 

35 of the licensee or applicant to the consultant and any 

36 other interaction between them; clarifying the 

37 circumstances under which an impaired practitioner 

38 consultant may disclose certain information concerning 

39 an impaired licensee or applicant; authorizing the 

40 Department of Health and others that contract with an 

41 impaired practitioner consultant to have 

42 administrative control over the consultant to the 

43 extent necessary to receive disclosures allowed under 

44 federal law; authorizing an impaired licensee to 

45 obtain confidential information from the department 

46 regarding a pending disciplinary proceeding; amending 

47 ss. 458.331 and 459.015, F.S.; conforming cross— 

48 references; creating s. 468.315, F.S.; providing that 

49 radiological personnel are subject to a treatment 

50 program for impaired licensees; providing an effective 

51 date. 

52 

53 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 

54 

55 Section 1. Section 456.076, Florida Statutes, is amended to 

56 read: 

57 456.076 Treatment programs for impaired practitioners.— 

58 (1) For professions that do not have impaired practitioner 

Page 2 of 13 

CODING: Words jtric]ccn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 



ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature CS for SB 248 

2013248er 

59 programs provided for in their practice acts, the department 

60 shall, by rule, designate approved impaired practitioner 

61 programs under this section. The department may adopt rules 

62 setting forth appropriate criteria for approval of treatment 

63 providers. The rules may specify the manner in which the 

64 consultant, retained as set forth in subsection (2), works with 

65 the department in intervention, requirements for evaluating and 

66 treating a professional, requirements for continued care of 

67 impaired professionals by approved treatment providers, 

68 continued monitoring by the consultant of the care provided by 

69 approved treatment providers regarding the professionals under 

70 their care, and requirements related to the consultant' s 

71 expulsion of professionals from the program. 

72 (2)(a) The department shall retain one or more impaired 

73 practitioner consultants who are each licensees. Tho 

74 bc under the jurisdiction of the Division of 

75 Medical Quality Assurance within the department and who must be: 

76 1. A practitioner or recovered practitioner licensed under 

77 chapter 458, chapter 459, or part I of chapter or 

78 2. An entity that employs: cmploying 

79 a. A medical director who must be a practitioner or 

80 recovered practitioner licensed under chapter 458 

or 

82 b. An executive director who must be a registered nurse or 

83 a recovered registered nurse licensed under part I of chapter 

84 464. 

85 b) An entity retained as an impaired practitioner 

86 consultant under this section which employs a medical director 

87 or an executive director is not required to be licensed as a 

Page 3 of 13 

CODING: Words jtric]ccn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 



ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature Cs for SB 248 

2013248er 

105 

106 

107 

108 

109 

110 

111 

112 

113 

substance abuse provider or mental health treatment provider 

under chapter 394, chapter 395, or chapter 397 for purposes of 

providing services under this program. . The consultant shall assist the probable cause panel 
and the department in carrying out the responsibilities of this 

section. This includes shall includc working with department 

investigators to determine whether a practitioner is, in fact, 

impaired. 

2. The consultant may contract with a school or program to 

provide f-er services to a student bc providcd, for appropriatc 

nn - f hv thr - fnr ldflfltfi enrolled 
for the purpose of preparing in schools for licensure as a 

health care practitioner as defined in this chapter or as a 

veterinarian under chapter 474 if the student is allegedly 

allopathic physicians or physician assistants undcr chaptcr 458, 

ostcopathic physicians or physician assistants undcr chaptcr 

459, nurscs undcr chaptcr 464, or pharmacists undcr chaptcr 465 

who arc allcgcd to bc impaired as a result of the misuse or 

abuse of alcohol or drugs, or both, or due to a mental or 

physical condition. The department is not responsible undcr any 

circumstanccs for paying for the costs of care provided by 

approved treatment providers or a consultant, and thc dcpartmcnt 
is not rcsponsiblc for paying thc costs of consultants' scrviccs 

providcd for studcnts. 

(d) A medical school accredited by the Liaison Committee on 

Medical Education or e-f the Commission on Osteopathic College 

Accreditation, or another othcr school providing for the 

education of students enrolled in preparation for licensure as a 

health care practitioner as defined in this chapter or a 

Page 4 of 13 

CODING: Words strickcn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

88 

89 

90 

91 

92 

93 

94 

95 

96 

97 

98 

99 

100 

101 

102 

103 

104 

114 

115 

116 



ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature CS for SB 248 

2013248er 

117 veterinarian under chapter 474 allopaLnic unacr 
118 chapter 458 or osteopathic physicians undcr chapter , which 
119 is governed by accreditation standards requiring notice and the 

120 provision of due process procedures to students, is not liable 

121 in any civil action for referring a student to the consultant 

122 retained by the department or for disciplinary actions that 

123 adversely affect the status of a student when the disciplinary 

124 actions are instituted in reasonable reliance on the 

125 recommendations, reports, or conclusions provided by such 

126 consultant, if the school, in referring the student or taking 

127 disciplinary action, adheres to the due process procedures 

128 adopted by the applicable accreditation entities and if the 

129 school committed no intentional fraud in carrying out the 

130 provisions of this section. 

131 3) Each board and profession within the Division of 

132 Medical Quality Assurance may delegate to its chair or other 

133 designee its authority to determine, before certifying or 

134 declining to certify an application for licensure to the 

135 department, that an applicant for licensure under its 

136 jurisdiction may be impaired as a result of the misuse or abuse 

137 of alcohol or drugs, or both, or due to a mental or physical 

138 condition that could affect the applicant' s ability to practice 

139 with skill and safety. Upon such determination, the chair or 

140 other designee may refer the applicant to the consultant for an 

141 evaluation before the board certifies or declines to certify his 

142 or her application to the department. If the applicant agrees to 

143 be evaluated by the consultant, the department' s deadline for 

144 approving or denying the application pursuant to s. 120.60(1) is 

145 tolled until the evaluation is completed and the result of the 

Page 5 of 13 

CODING: Words stric]ccn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 





ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature CS for SB 248 

2013248er 

175 diagnoses, and treatment of the licensee, including records of 

176 treatment for emotional or mental conditions, to the consultant. 

177 The consultant shall make no copies or reports of records that 

178 do not regard the issue of the licensee' s impairment and his or 

179 her participation in a treatment program. 

180 (b) If, however, the department has not received a legally 

181 sufficient complaint and the licensee agrees to withdraw from 

182 practice until such time as the consultant determines the 

183 licensee has satisfactorily completed an approved treatment 

184 program or evaluation, the probable cause panel, or the 

185 department when there is no board, shall not become involved in 

186 the licensee' s case. 

187 (c) Inquiries related to impairment treatment programs 

188 designed to provide information to the licensee and others and 

189 which do not indicate that the licensee presents a danger to the 

190 public shall not constitute a complaint within the meaning of s. 

191 456.073 and shall be exempt from the provisions of this 

192 subsection. 

193 (d) Whenever the department receives a legally sufficient 

194 complaint alleging that a licensee is impaired as described in 

195 paragraph (a) and no complaint against the licensee other than 

196 impairment exists, the department shall forward all information 

197 in its possession regarding the impaired licensee to the 

198 consultant. For the purposes of this section, a suspension from 

199 hospital staff privileges due to the impairment does not 

200 constitute a complaint. 

201 (e) The probable cause panel, or the department when there 

202 is no board, shall work directly with the consultant, and all 

203 information concerning a practitioner obtained from the 

Page 7 of 13 

CODING: Words jtric]ccn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 



ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature CS for SB 248 

2013248er 

204 consultant by the panel, or the department when there is no 

205 board, shall remain confidential and exempt from the provisions 

206 of s. 119.07(1), subject to the provisions of subsections -(-s-)- 

207 (6) and ) 
208 (f) A finding of probable cause shall not be made as long 

209 as the panel, or the department when there is no board, is 

210 satisfied, based upon information it receives from the 

211 consultant and the department, that the licensee is progressing 

212 satisfactorily in an approved impaired practitioner program and 

213 no other complaint against the licensee exists. 

214 (5)-(-4-)- In any disciplinary action for a violation other 

215 than impairment in which a licensee establishes the violation 

216 for which the licensee is being prosecuted was due to or 

217 connected with impairment and further establishes the licensee 

218 is satisfactorily progressing through or has successfully 

219 completed an approved treatment program pursuant to this 

220 section, such information may be considered by the board, or the 

221 department when there is no board, as a mitigating factor in 

222 determining the appropriate penalty. This subsection does not 

223 limit mitigating factors the board may consider. 

224 (6)-(-g-)-(a) An approved treatment provider shall, upon 

225 request, disclose to the consultant all information in its 

226 possession regarding the issue of a licensee' s impairment and 

227 participation in the treatment program. All information obtained 

228 by the consultant and department pursuant to this section is 

229 confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119.07(1), 

230 subject to the provisions of this subsection and subsection 

231 (7)-(-6-)-. Failure to provide such information to the consultant is 

232 grounds for withdrawal of approval of such program or provider. 

Page 8 of 13 

CODING: Words jtric]ccn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 



ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature CS for SB 248 

2013248er 

233 (b) If in the opinion of the consultant, after consultation 

234 with the treatment provider, an impaired licensee has not 

235 progressed satisfactorily in a treatment program, all 

236 information regarding the issue of a licensee' s impairment and 

237 participation in a treatment program in the consultant' s 

238 possession shall be disclosed to the department. Such disclosure 

239 shall constitute a complaint pursuant to the general provisions 

240 of s. 456.073. Whenever the consultant concludes that impairment 

241 affects a licensee' s practice and constitutes an immediate, 

242 serious danger to the public health, safety, or welfare, that 

243 conclusion shall be communicated to the State Surgeon General. 

244 (7)-(-€-)- A consultant, licensee, or approved treatment 

245 provider who makes a disclosure pursuant to this section is not 

246 subject to civil liability for such disclosure or its 

247 consequences. The provisions of s. 766.101 apply to any officer, 

248 employee, or agent of the department or the board and to any 

249 officer, employee, or agent of any entity with which the 

250 department has contracted pursuant to this section. 

251 A consultant retained pursuant to subsection (2), 

252 a consultant' s officers and employees, and those acting at the 

253 direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an 

254 emergency intervention on behalf of a licensee or student as 

255 described in subsection (2) when the consultant is unable to 

256 perform such intervention shall be considered agents of the 

257 department for purposes of s. 768.28 while acting within the 

258 scope of the consultant' s duties under the contract with the 

259 department if the contract complies with the requirements of 

260 this section. The contract must require that: 

261 1. The consultant indemnify the state for any liabilities 

Page 9 of 13 

CODING: Words jtric]ccn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 



ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature CS for SB 248 

2013248er 

262 incurred up to the limits set out in chapter 768. 

263 2. The consultant establish a quality assurance program to 

264 monitor services delivered under the contract. 

265 3. The consultant' s quality assurance program, treatment, 

266 and monitoring records be evaluated quarterly. 

267 4. The consultant' s quality assurance program be subject to 

268 review and approval by the department. 

269 5. The consultant operate under policies and procedures 

270 approved by the department. 

271 6. The consultant provide to the department for approval a 

272 policy and procedure manual that comports with all statutes, 

273 rules, and contract provisions approved by the department. 

274 7. The department be entitled to review the records 

275 relating to the consultant' s performance under the contract for 

276 the purpose of management audits, financial audits, or program 

277 evaluation. 

278 8. All performance measures and standards be subject to 

279 verification and approval by the department. 

280 9. The department be entitled to terminate the contract 

281 with the consultant for noncompliance with the contract. 

282 (b) In accordance with s. 284.385, the Department of 

283 Financial Services shall defend any claim, suit, action, or 

284 proceeding against the consultant, the consultant' s officers or 

285 employees, or those acting at the direction of the consultant 

286 for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention on behalf 

287 of a licensee or student as described in subsection (2) when the 

288 consultant is unable to perform such intervention which is 

289 brought as a result of any act or omission by any of the 

290 consultant' s officers and employees and those acting under the 

Page 10 of 13 

CODING: Words jtric]ccn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 



ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature CS for SB 248 

2013248er 

291 direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an 

292 emergency intervention on behalf of a licensee or student as 

293 described in subsection (2) when the consultant is unable to 

294 perform such intervention when such act or omission arises out 

295 of and in the scope of the consultant' s duties under its 

296 contract with the department. 

297 (c) If the consultant retained pursuant to subsection (2) 

298 is retained by any other state agency, and if the contract 

299 between such state agency and the consultant complies with the 

300 requirements of this section, the consultant, the consultant' s 

301 officers and employees, and those acting under the direction of 

302 the consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency 

303 intervention on behalf of a licensee or student as described in 

304 subsection (2) when the consultant is unable to perform such 

305 intervention shall be considered agents of the state for the 

306 purposes of this section while acting within the scope of and 

307 pursuant to guidelines established in the contract between such 

308 state agency and the consultant. 

309 9) An impaired practitioner consultant is the official 

310 custodian of records relating to the referral of an impaired 

311 licensee or applicant to that consultant and any other 

312 interaction between the licensee or applicant and the 

313 consultant. The consultant may disclose to the impaired licensee 

314 or applicant or his or her designee any information that is 

315 disclosed to or obtained by the consultant or that is 

316 confidential under paragraph (6) (a), but only to the extent that 

317 it is necessary to do so to carry out the consultant' s duties 

318 under this section. The department, and any other entity that 

319 enters into a contract with the consultant to receive the 

Page 11 of 13 

CODING: Words jtric]ccn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 



ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature CS for SB 248 

2013248er 

320 services of the consultant, has direct administrative control 

321 over the consultant to the extent necessary to receive 

322 disclosures from the consultant as allowed by federal law. If a 

323 disciplinary proceeding is pending, an impaired licensee may 

324 obtain such information from the department under s. . 
325 Section 2. Paragraph (e) of subsection (1) of section 

326 458.331, Florida Statutes, is amended to read: 

327 458.331 Grounds for disciplinary action; action by the 

328 board and department.— 

329 (1) The following acts constitute grounds for denial of a 

330 license or disciplinary action, as specified in s. 456.072(2): 

331 (e) Failing to report to the department any person who the 

332 licensee knows is in violation of this chapter or of the rules 

333 of the department or the board. A treatment provider approved 

334 pursuant to s. 456.076 shall provide the department or 

335 consultant with information in accordance with the requirements 

336 of s. 456.076(4), (5), (6), (7), and (9) 456.076(3), , 
337 5), and ) 
338 Section 3. Paragraph (e) of subsection (1) of section 

339 459.015, Florida Statutes, is amended to read: 

340 459.015 Grounds for disciplinary action; action by the 

341 board and department.— 

342 (1) The following acts constitute grounds for denial of a 

343 license or disciplinary action, as specified in s. 456.072(2): 

344 (e) Failing to report to the department or the department' s 

345 impaired professional consultant any person who the licensee or 

346 certificateholder knows is in violation of this chapter or of 

347 the rules of the department or the board. A treatment provider, 

348 approved pursuant to s. 456.076, shall provide the department or 

Page 12 of 13 

CODING: Words jtric]ccn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 



ENROLLED 
2013 Legislature Cs for SB 248 

2013248er 

consultant with information in accordance with the requirements 

of s. 456.076(4), (5), (6), (7), and (9) 456.076(3), (4), 

5), and ) 
Section 4. Section 468.315, Florida Statutes, is created to 

read: 

468.315 Treatment program for impaired radiological 

personnel.—Radiological personnel who are subject to 

certification under this part are governed by s. 456.076 as if 

they were under the jurisdiction of the Division of Medical 

Quality . 
Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 2013. 

Page 13 of 13 

CODING: Words jtric]ccn are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

349 

350 

351 

352 

353 

354 

355 

356 

357 

358 

359 



BOARD OF PHARMACY Rules Report September 2013 

Rule Number Rule Title 
Rule 

Development 
Published 

Notice Published Adopted Effective Comments 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B1 6-28.100 
Pharmacy Permits - 

Applications and Permitting 
7/3/2013 7/22/2013 9/3/2013 9/23/2013 

Recd JAPC Ltr 
7/31/13 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B1 6-28.100 
Pharmacy Permits - 

Applications and Permitting 
1/3/20 13 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B1 6-26.206 

Application for Pharmacist 
Licensure by Endorsement 
(Foreign Pharmacy Graduates) 

10/1/2012 
5/24/2013 

Tolled 7/31/13 

JAPC Ltr. Recd 
6/5/13, 7/9/1 3, 7/30/13 

Resp 8/08/13 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B16-28.450 
Centralized Presciption Filling, 
Delivering and Returning 

9/6/2013 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B1 6-28.802 
Special Sterile Compounding 
Permits 

7/3/2013 7/22/2013 
Rec'd JAPC Ltr 
7/31/1 3, pending 
response 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B16-28.840 
Special Non-Resident (mail- 
service) 

1/3/2013 
Pending SERC reqired 
forms and language. 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B1 6-28.901 
Nuclear Pharmacy-General 
Requirements 

9/6/2013 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B1 6-30.001 

Disciplinary Guidelines, Range 
of Penalties, Aggravating and 
Mitigating Circumstances 

9/6/2013 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 
1 of 37 

07/01/2013 

07/01/20 13 

07/01/2013 
07/0 1/20 13 

07/01/2013 

07/01/2013 

07/01/2013 

11600 G
ladiolus D

r 

11 
E

ast M
erritt Island 

C
ausew

ay 

4600 S
um

m
erlin R

d 

2000 S
w

 C
ollege R

d 

4209 Lo. C
uibreath A

ve 

6295 W
 W

aters A
ve 

1120 15T
h S

treet 

33343 U
s 19 N

 

501 
6T

h A
venue S

 

3888 H
w

y 90 

N
ot P

racticing 
In F

lorida 
P

 0 B
ox 6320 

3343 D
aniels R

d 

20300W
 C

ountry C
lub 

D
rive #109 

11501 N
 M

ilitary T
r 

Lakeland, F
L 

33805 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33908 

M
erritt Island, F

L 
3295 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33919 

O
cala, F

L 
34471 

T
am

pa, F
L 33609 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33634 

A
ugusta, G

A
 

30904 

P
alm

 H
arbor, F

L 
34684 

S
t. P

etersburg, F
L 

33701 

M
ilton, F

L 32571 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32314-6320 
W

inter G
arden, F

L 
34787 

A
ventura, F

L 33180 

P
S

 
50383 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

07/01/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50384 

50385 

A
shley, Jacqueline 

A
nne 

07/01/2013 

07/01/2013 

B
row

n, D
ouglas Lee 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50386 

04/17/1977 

07/08/1986 

M
ossm

an, D
aniel 

M
ichael 

07/01/2013 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

50387 

04/21/1989 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
S

 

F
letcher, C

harles 
A

ndrew
 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
S

 

50388 

08/06/1986 

2040 58T
h A

ve 

50389 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

02/22/1989 

P
L Location 

S
chreiner, Joseph 

John 

B
eard, K

erry S
uzanne 

G
lover, K

elly N
icole 

Lopez, E
lisse N

icole 

1324 Lakeland H
ills B

lvd 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

V
ero B

each, F
L 

32966 

11/28/1988 

12/28/1984 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f K
entucky 

06/25/1988 
P

S
 

P
S

 

P
S

 
- 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50390 

50391 

50392 

50393 

50394 

50395 

50396 

07/01/2013 

07/01/2013 

07/01/2013 

H
am

m
ond, D

rayton 
A

dam
 

Lee, C
asey A

ndrew
 

H
ew

itt, M
egan S

arah 
E

lizabeth 

Jernigan, A
nna 

M
cgee 

R
abbath, P

eter 
R

ichard 
S

m
ith, B

randon 
Joseph 
K

im
, K

i-P
oong 

S
haw

aqfeh, 
M

oham
m

ad S
aud 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

S
outh C

arolina C
ollege 

O
f P

harm
acy 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f 
M

ississippi M
ain 

C
am

pus 
A

uburn U
niversity M

ain 
C

am
pus 

F
lorida A

 &
 

M
 

U
niversity 

09/21/1987 

10/1 8/1 987 

08/07/1988 

07/21/1985 

02/24/1987 

07/23/1989 

10/05/1960 

10/03/1970 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50397 

50398 

07/01/2013 

07/01/2013 

M
assachusetts C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

U
niversity O

f Iow
a 

P
S

 
50399 

07/01/2013 
Leurig, Lena Y

eenor 
03/08/1 972 

U
niversity O

f Illinois A
t 

C
hicago 

820 S
. D

am
en A

ve 
C

hicago, IL 60612 

12/06/1989 

12/26/1985 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50400 
07/01/2013 

50401 
1 

07/01/2013 

B
entley, K

im
berly 

M
arie 

M
itrano, B

enedetto 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50402 

50403 

07/01/2013 
Jackson, C

hristopher 
D

avid 

07/01/2013 
rM

altz, Jessica M
arie 

P
S

 
50404 

07/01/2013 
M

endelsohn, R
achel 

K
aplan 

F
lorida 

D
epartm

ent of H
ealth 

07/1 6/1 988 

09/11/1987 

10/28/1986 

P
alm

 B
each G

ardens, F
L 

33410 

B
elm

ont U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1 S
hircliff W

ay 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32204 

2200 G
ulf T

o B
ay B

lvd. 
C

learw
ater, 

F
L 

33759 

800 P
rudential D

rive 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32207 

5420 9T
h S

t N
 

P
etersburg, F

L 
33716 

900 E
 M

ain S
t 

1 Lake B
utler, F

L 
32054 

pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 
O

N
D

 



O
lvlsion of 

M
edical Q

ualifY
 A

ssurance 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

M
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2201 
: Pharm

acist 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

—
 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
10:12:30A

M
 

P
age 2 of 37 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
50405 

07/01/2013 
M

ladenova, lzabela 
03/12/1989 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
2403 N

orth P
once D

e 
S

aint A
ugustine, F

L 

P
S

 
50406 

07101/2013 
M

ontgom
ery, K

ayla 
09/11/1989 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

11324 Lakeland H
ills B

lvd 
1 Lakeland, F

L 
33805 

P
S

 
50407 

07/01/2013 
M

ungal, W
esley 

11/12/1987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
412 S

t H
elens A

ve 
T

acom
a, W

A
 

98402 

P
S

 
50408 

07/01/2013 
rO

estreich, G
eorge 

05/19/194T
1 U

niversity O
f 

3714 T
aylors R

idge C
ourt 

Jefferson C
ity, M

O
 

Louis 
M

issouri-K
ansas C

ity 
I 

P
S

 
J 

50409 
3 

A
hm

adS
aeed 

09/28/1985 
F

oreign 
=

 34O
W

23R
dS

tS
teD

2 
1 

L 
32405 

1 

- 
5041 

07/01/201 3jS
m

ith, C
arl Jonathan 

02/22/1982 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
7520 W

. N
ew

berry R
oad 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32606 

50411 
07/01/2013 

T
ate, Lindsey S

hea 
02/21/1989 

O
f F

lorida 
800 P

rudential D
r 

Jacksonville 
F

L 
32207 

Joseph 
10/1 2/1 987 

r 
4893 T

ow
n C

enter 
F

L 
32246 

P
S

 
I 

50413 
07/02/2013 

Janew
ay, R

yan 
01/08/1984 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1070 E
. B

randon B
lvd 

B
randon, F

L 
33511 

L 
D

aniel 

P
S

 
50414 

07/02/2013 
B

randner, D
anny 

04/22/1984 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
11800 S

t R
d 44 

N
ew

 S
m

yrna B
each, F

L 

pS
 

- 
50415 

07/02/2013 
A

shley M
arie 

12/20/1 986 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
686 G

lades R
d 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33431 

P
S

 
50416T

 07/02/2013 
H

eyw
ood, D

arren 
07/15/1975 

T
em

ple U
niversity 

1201 M
ain S

treet 
P

eekskill, N
Y

 
10566 

O
liver 

ps 
[ 

50417 
07/02/2013 

Langford, S
arah 

03/07/1983 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
12279 Lake U

nderhill R
d 

O
rlando, F

L 
32825 

C
larice 

07/02/2013 
M

ei 
1 S

w
 17T

h 
33176 

- 

P
S

 
50419 

07/02/2013 
A

ikm
an, M

argherita 
08/16/1973 

U
niversity O

f T
he 

I 
N

ot P
racticing 

In F
lorida 

T
allahassee, F

L 

Joy W
arm

an 
P

acific 
P

 0 B
ox 6320 

32314-6320 

P
S

 
50420 

07/02/2013 
1 A

rchthald; E
rin N

icole 
01/21/1988 

A
uburn U

niversity M
ain 

1800 
D

rive 
1 Jacksonville, F

L 
32207 

—
—

 
,—

-.—
—

—
--—

—
-—

 _J_ 
P

S
 

1 
50421 

07/02/2013 
C

arter, Lori D
aniele 

12/01/1988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
800 P

rudential D
rive 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32207 

07/02/2013 
C

hapm
an,M

egafl 

1 D
odrill, Jason 

10/15/1986 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

6700 B
ayshore R

d 
N

orth F
ort M

yers, F
L 

M
atthew

 
L 

U
niversity 

33917 

D
uane 

A
lyssa N

icole 108/19/1988 
O

f F
lorida 

—
 

3634 R
ogero R

d 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32277 - 

P
S

 
50425 

07/02/2013 
T

aylor Lynn 
08/29/1988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

- 
T

l7op S
 T

am
iam

i 
S

arasota, F
L 

34239 

W
P

Iatt S
treet 

- 
33607 

-- 
- 

P
S

 
50427 

L 07/02/2013 
G

am
ba, A

lyssa Lynn 
j 09/10/1986 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

2747 G
ulf T

o B
ay B

lvd. 
r 

F
L 

33759 

,cQ
j2ol3 

E
yer, R

achel L
ynn 

U
niversity O

f 
m

iarniT
raH

 
S

arasO
ta 

F
L 342311 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
212013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ua W
y A

ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
10:12:30A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 3 of37 

B
urbage, S

arah 
E

lizabeth 

S
o, Jeong H

o 

V
asquez, Jackson 

A
dkiris, D

avid S
haw

n 

R
ose 

P
L A

ddress 

9734 B
osque C

reek C
ircle 

A
pt 303 

2489 D
iplom

at P
arkw

ay 
E

ast 

520 
S

. B
urnside A

ve 11-H
 

5500 S
w

 77T
h C

t A
pt 209 

27841 C
row

n Lake B
lvd 

2302 Jim
 R

edm
an P

kw
y 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
151 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L Location 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50429 

- 
07/02/2013 

R
ios, Lauren A

lexis 
10/07/1987 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

655 W
est 8T

h S
treet 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32209 

50430 
07/03/2013 

F
oskey, D

aniel B
lake 

10/28/1988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
ioooo B

ay P
ines B

lvd 
B

ay P
ines, F

L 
33744 

P
S

 
50431 

07/03/2013 
F

ung, B
rian 

08/12/1 987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
1700 S

outh T
am

iam
i T

rail 
S

arasota, F
L 

34239 

P
S

 
50432 

. 

07/03/2013 
M

ollohan, S
arah 

07/07/1987 
E

lizabeth 
E

ast T
ennessee S

tate 
U

niversity 
i 714 H

ighw
ay 93 #11 

F
all B

ranch, 
37656 

P
S

 
50433 

07/03/2013 
H

onein, D
anielle 

06/18/1 988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
1700 S

. T
am

iam
i T

rail 
S

arasota, F
L 

34239 

P
S

 
50434 

07/03/2013 
Leonard, P

aul 
T

heodore 
12/1 9/1 985 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

731 
D

uval S
tation R

d #4 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32218 

P
S

 
50435 

07/03/2013 
M

arandici, C
hristine 

A
nne 

12/12/1987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
10831 

F
ox G

len D
rive 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33428 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32209 

Lexington, 
K

Y
 40508 

P
S

 
50436 

P
S

 
50437 

07/03/2013 
M

callister, M
atthew

 
10/03/1986 

D
rake U

niversity 

- 
• 

655 W
est 8T

h S
treet 

—
 

07/03/2013 
B

ranfley, 

P
S

 
50438 

07/03/2013 
K

areka, S
teven 

A
nthony 

09/11/1984 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
8905 B

ryan D
airy R

d 
S

em
inole, F

L 
33777 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50439 
07/03/2013 

C
olletti, C

ourtney 
05/02/1988 

10/22/1 983 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

7575 O
sceola P

olk Line 
D

avenport, F
L 

33896 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32209 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33607 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32204 

50440 
07/03/2013 

I C
olem

an, Jam
es 

D
avid 

2261 W
 E

dgew
ood A

ve 

P
S

 
50441 

07/03/2013 
M

iller, A
nne M

arie 
08/17/1988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1544 N
 D

ale M
abry H

w
y 

P
S

 
50442 

07/03/2013 
N

guyen, N
am

 H
uy 

10/02/1985 

04/10/1986 

08/24/1989 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

i 
S

hircliff W
ay 

P
S

 
50443 

07/03/2013 
O

palenyk 
Iryna V

 
U

niversrtyO
fF

brida 
lS

hirchff W
ay 

1601 S
w

 A
rcher R

oad 

405 S
e B

raughton S
treet 

F
L 

32204 

P
S

 
50444 

50445 

07/03/2013 

07/03/2013 

P
atel, K

rishna 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

G
ainesville, 

F
L 

32608 

B
ranford, F

L 
32008 

--.—
--- 

P
S

 
S

essions, K
atryna Jo 

09/26/1979 

P
S

 
50446 

07/03/2013 
S

hom
o, E

ileen 
C

atherina 
03/18/1988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

655W
 8T

h S
treet 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32209 

P
S

 
50447 

07/03/2013 
T

rang, Joseph H
al 

02/28/1989 

P
S

 
50448 

07/03/2013 

P
S

 
50449 

07/03/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 
50450 

07/03/2013 

50451 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

03/04/1988 

0 8/06/1 980 

P
S

 
50452 

07/05/2013 

07/05/2013 

12/02/1988 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 

05/21/1986 

R
akestraw

, K
atherine 

04/10/1986 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33619 

U
niversity O

f F
indlay 

M
ercer U

niversity 

C
ape C

oral, F
L 

33909 

Los A
ngeles, C

A
 

90036 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33155 

B
onita S

prings, F
L 

34135 

P
lant C

ity, F
L 

33563 



D
ivision of 

M
edical 

A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
S

ort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 4 of37 

Licensee N
am

e 

D
uffy, C

aitlin A
m

ber 

E
flis, C

atrina A
Itrell 

Lockw
ood, A

shley 
M

arie 
P

ezzoli, M
aria W

ells 

S
herm

an, M
atthew

 
M

ark 
M

azalew
ski, K

risten 
Lee 
H

ealy, 
K

arl Joseph 

V
oils, S

tacy A
lan 

B
ullard, John 

C
hristopher 

K
nizner, M

egan D
iane 

Y
oung, R

yan B
 

06/1 0/1 987 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
07/13/1986 

03/08/1 989 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

08/31/1 976 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

03/10/1986 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

05/25/1965 
U

niversity O
f Illinois A

t 

I C
hicago 

-- 

12/03/1989 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

02/07/1986 
C

am
pbell U

niversity 
Incorporated 

10/1 5/1 984 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

10/22/1 982 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

10/20/1 987 
S

outh C
arolina C

ollege 
O

f P
harm

acy 
09/25/1985 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
L A

ddress 

800 N
orth O

range A
venue 

800 O
cala R

d 

18290 C
ollins A

ve 

1 
S

hircliff W
ay 

4000 N
 G

oldenrod R
d 

10000 B
ay P

ines B
lvd 

5881 
N

J U
niversity D

r 

1630 E
 M

arks S
t 

401 
N

. 12T
h S

t 

619 S
 M

arion A
ve 

9509 S
an Jose B

lvd. 

1589W
 Lantana R

d 

508 
10T

h S
t 

E
 

15600 S
w

 146 A
ve. 

655 W
est 8T

h S
treet 

12026 A
nderson R

d 

151 
N

 M
ichigan A

ve 
#3701 

9143 P
hillips H

ighw
ay, 

S
uite 533 

1600 A
rcher R

d 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

P
S

 
50453 

P
S

 

07/05/2013 

50454 

P
S

 

07/08/2013 

50455 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

08/05/1989 

07108/2013 

M
edvid, A

ndrea P
aula 

09/09/1968 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50456 

50458 

E
D

U
 Institution 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

07/08/2013 

07/08/2013 

07/08/2013 

P
S

 

05/18/1987 

50459 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
S

 

07/08/2013 

09/02/1977 

P
L Location 

50460 

01/03/1989 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

07/08/2013 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

G
reen C

ove S
prings, F

L 
32043 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32304 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

06/08/1987 

50461 

50462 

50463 

07/08/2013 

07/08/2013 

07/08/2013 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

04/05/1986 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

08/29/1971 

10/14/1986 

S
unny Isles, F

L 
33160 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32204 

W
inter P

ark, F
L 

32792 

50464 
07/08/2013 

U
niversity O

f K
entucky 

U
niversity O

f G
eorgia 

08/1 3/1 987 

02/19/1989 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50465 

50466 
07/08/2013 

1 

50467 
07/08/2013 

07/08/2013'D
urand,G

abrielle 
D

es iree 
W

alters, C
onrad 

M
orris, S

tew
art 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50468 

50469 

07/08/2013 

07/08/2013 

S
anz, D

erek A
nthony 

M
ourafetis, Jennifer 

lA
nne 

P
S

 
50470 

07/08/2013 
Jackson, K

im
berly 

P
S

 
-- 

07/08/2013 
G

am
ble, G

inger P
rice 

50471 

- 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50473 

50474 

07/08/2013 
j B

ailey, H
anna 

07/08/2013 
B

ock, C
assandra Lee 

j 
M

iddleton 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 

B
ay P

ines, F
L 33744 

T
am

arac, F
L 

33321 

O
rlando, F

L 
32803 

R
ichm

ond, V
A

 
23298 

Lake C
ity, F

L 
32025 

Jacksonville, 
F

L 
32257 

Lantana, F
L 

33462 

P
alm

etto, F
L 

34221 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33177 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32209 

T
am

pa, 
F

L 
33625 

C
hicago, IL 

60601 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32256 

G
ainesville, 

F
L 

32610 

11018 A
aron F

ish R
oad 

G
len S

aint M
ary, 

F
L 

32040 

1414 K
uhI A

ve M
p 192 

O
rlando, F

L 
32806 

10899 B
aym

eadow
s R

oad 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32256 

2513 U
s H

ighw
ay 19 

1 H
oliday, F

L 
34691 

pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 
O

N
D

 



D
ivIsion of 

M
edical Q

ualify A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 5 of37 

E
llis, H

eather Jean 

B
eadle, B

arbara A
nn 

K
arara, K

areem
 A

del 

Jarriel, M
allory A

nne 

T
ucker, A

m
elia 

N
adine 

V
incent, M

arc-A
ndre 

V
ogt, Jacqueline C

an 
C

onrad 

P
ham

, G
ina T

huy 

C
apehart, Jenelle 

P
eterson, Jennifer 

M
arie 

R
yan, K

evin M
ichael 

W
ahid, S

habnam
 Y

 

H
endrickson, A

ndrew
 

Law
rence 

Q
uintana, Laurene 

A
nne 

M
arie 

T
ran, S

ylvia 

V
allejos, X

im
ena 

S
t Louis C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

P
hiladelphia C

ollege 
O

f P
harm

acy A
nd S

ci 
U

niversity O
f G

eorgia 

P
L A

ddress 

704 W
 M

Ik B
lvd 

2261 W
 N

ew
 H

aven A
ve 

1835 W
. S

and Lake R
d. 

7431 A
tlantic B

lvd 

850 Ives D
airy R

d S
te T

-1 

3615 S
e 171 S

t S
treet 

150 S
e 3R

d A
ve 

2100 S
e S

alerno R
oad 

1601 
S

w
 A

rcher R
oad 

1201 
N

w
 16T

h S
t 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32605 

W
est M

elbourne, F
L 

32904 

Linthicum
, M

D
 21090 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32308 

K
eystone H

eights, F
L 

32656 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33125 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33626 

N
aples, F

L 
34119 

S
effner, F

L 33584 

W
est M

elbourne, F
L 

32904 

O
rlando, F

L 32809 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32211 

N
orth M

iam
i, F

L 
33179 

H
aw

thorne, F
L 

32640 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33133 

S
tuart, F

L 
34997 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32608 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33125 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 
50476 

07/08/2013 
B

row
n, B

rian K
eith 

06/27/1987 
U

niversity O
f G

eorgia 
1600 7T

h A
ve S

outh 
B

irm
ingham

, A
L 

35233 

p5 
50477 

07/08/2013 
Johnson, Lori A

nn 
11/20/1985 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
10936 N

w
 Judy D

rive 
B

ristol, F
L 

32321 

P
S

 
50478 

07/08/2013 
H

eil, E
rin B

arbara 
07/05/1 988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

2303 S
w

 75T
h S

t. 
G

ainesville, F
L 

32608 

P
S

 
50479 

07/08/2013 
B

elin, Lauren A
shley 

11/01/1987 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

2250 
S

. F
erdon B

lvd 
C

restview
, F

L 32536 

P
S

 
50480 

07/08/2013 
P

aw
lik, E

rica E
vona 

01/30/1985 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
2390 E

ast B
ay D

rive 
Largo, F

L 
33771 

P
S

 
50481 

07/08/2013 
F

oster, Julie M
arie 

12/02/1987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
124 S

unflow
er C

ircle 
R

oyal P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33411 

07/09/2013 
50482 

50483 

P
L Location 

P
S

 

07/09/2013 

50484 

08/03/1988 

07/09/2013 

50485 

08/31/1 968 

07/09/2013 
P

S
 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

07/09/2013 

11/28/1986 

50486 

50487 

50488 

03/14/1989 

6500 W
 N

ew
berry R

d 

07/09/2013 

07/09/20 13 

04/01/1 990 

4305 N
orfolk P

kw
y 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

07/09/2013 
P

S
 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

08/02/1987 

02/23/1988 

50489 

50491 

50492 

806G
 B

arkw
ood C

ourt 

1300 M
iccosukee R

d 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

07/09/2013 

07/09/2013 

07/09/2013 

05/20/1982 

P
S

 

120 W
 W

alker D
r 

04/15/1985 

50493 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 

07/09/2013 

1201 N
w

 16T
h S

t. #119 

M
ercer U

niversity 

P
S

 

10/06/1983 

8801 W
est Linebaugh 

A
venue 

50495 

07/11/1987 

07/09/2013 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

15295 C
ollier B

lvd 

07/09/2013 

P
S

 
50494 

07/09/2013 
A

lle, M
ichael O

luw
ole 

03/25/1987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
03/18/1987 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

11/15/1988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

P
S

 
50498 

P
S

 
I 

50499 

03/21/1 989 

07/09/2013 
07/09/2013 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

11/28/1978 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

U
niversity 

05/04/1 988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

10/10/1987 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 



D
ivision ol 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
10:12:30A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 6 of 37 

H
ow

ard, B
rooke 

01/02/1984 
S

am
antha 

A
ram

ini, R
ichard 

05/1 2/1 986 
Z

achary 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 

U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

E
D

U
 Institution 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50500 
07/09/2013 

R
ugay, E

rika Joy 
02/29/1 988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

3001 W
 D

r M
artin Luther 

K
ing Jr B

lv 

1601 
S

.W
. A

rcher R
oad 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33607 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32608 

50501 
07/09/2013 

B
oles, K

atherine Littig 
06/28/1981 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
S

 
50502 

07/09/2013 
V

arghese, M
aryann 

Joseph 
10/11/1988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

9650 S
w

 9T
h C

ourt 
P

em
broke P

ines, 
F

L 
33025 

P
S

 
50503 

07/09/2013 
C

apristo, A
lexis 

M
onica 

12/20/1987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
8905 B

ryan D
airy R

d 
Largo, F

L 
33777 

D
eiray B

each, F
L 

33484 
P

S
 

50504 
07/09/2013 

Islam
, F

ahad 
05/06/1 984 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 
6464 N

. A
tlantic A

ve 

P
S

 
50505 

50506 

07/09/2013 

07/09/2013 

Lokken, H
eather 

01/11/1984 

07/23/1 986 

W
ingate U

niversity 
2301 M

oody B
lvd 

F
lagler B

each, F
L 

32136 

818 S
outhern B

lvd 
I W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33405 

fw
9o 

Lake R
d 

N
ot P

racticing In F
lorida 

T
allahassee, F

L 
P

 0 B
ox 6320 

32314-6320 

P
S

 
M

orales, Jose 
R

icardo 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

U
niversity 

P
S

 
50507 

07110/2013 
Lieu 

S
lam

 
04/27fl976 lversrty 

S
unyA

t B
uffalo 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50508 

50509 

50510 
, 

50511 

07/10/2013 
Low

, Y
ee W

on 
09/04/1981 

07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

C
ogan, P

atrick S
hane 

11/10/1987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
4409 S

w
 20T

h Lane 

114550 S
t A

ugustine R
d 

J 800 S
tate R

d 7 

619 S
 M

arion A
venue 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32607 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32258 

W
ellington, F

L 
33414 

Lake C
ity, F

L 
32025 

S
chnell, Lauren 

F
 03/29/1 983 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

M
ariea 

F
alco, O

rnella 
04/19/1986 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 

G
honim

, A
hm

ed 
09/20/1988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

A
bd&

m
onem

 
P

S
 

50512 

P
S

 
50513 

07/10/2013 
H

ayw
ood, P

atti 
M

ichelle 
09/13/1988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

25809 S
w

 H
ighw

ay 19 
O

ld T
ow

n, F
L 

32680 

V
alrico, F

L 
33594 

A
ltam

onte S
prings, F

L 
32701 

P
S

 
50514 

50515 

07/10/2013 
—

 
- 

07/10/2013 

T
em

an, Jason M
arc 

B
adzinski, M

arina 
K

aoli R
epp 

03/17/1986 
--- 

A
ppalachian C

ollege 
2109 S

tate R
d 60 E

 

482 
E

. A
ltam

onte D
r S

te 
1005 

P
S

 
11/23/1987 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
S

 
50516 

P
S

 
50517 

P
S

 
5
0
5
1
8
 

07/10/2013 
Jackson, A

lexandra 
04/06/1 989 

07/10/2013 
I P

eterson, JoelA
aron 

11/13/1983 

07/10/2013 
S
h
a
w
,
 
C
a
r
a
 E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
 

1
1
/
1
2
/
1
9
7
9
 

O
hio N

orthern 
3 C

iderm
ill H

gts 
N

orth G
ranby, C

T
 

06060 
U

ers 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
'667 Jam

estow
n B

lvd A
pt 

A
ltam

onte S
prings, F

L 
1066 

S
u
l
l
i
v
a
n
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 

L
 

8351 w
est R

ockville R
d 

Indianapolis, IN
 

46234 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

P
5 

50519 
07/10/2013 

P
S

 
50520 

07/10/2013 

3753 W
inkler A

venue E
xt 

10000 B
ay P

ines B
lvd N

 

F
ortM

yers,F
L 

33916 

B
ay P

ines, F
L 

33744 



D
ivision or 

M
edical G

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 7 of37 

Jagat, K
am

eela 
V

ashti 

S
aim

onth 

07/10/2013 
M

annen, Jared 
M

atthew
 

M
celdow

ney, Jessica 
Lynn 
M

cm
ahon, A

ndre 
Jam

es 

U
niversity O

f Louisiana 
A

t M
onroe 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

S
aint John'S

 U
niversity 

N
ew

 Y
ork 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f 
P

ittsburgh C
entral 

O
ffice 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
50521 

07/10/2013 
A

rw
ood, M

eghan 
Jane 

02/12/1988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
1350 S

. H
ickory S

t. 
M

elbourne, F
L 

32901 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50522 
07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

B
aker, K

atelyn 
E

lizabeth 
03/18/1987 

A
lbany C

ollege O
f 

106 Lincoln S
treet 

P
harm

acy 

U
niversity 

- 
B

lvd 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
2931 S

. M
ccall R

d 

t P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
1634 

S
 F

ederal H
w

y 
U

niversity 

S
itka, A

K
 

99835 

12/27/1980 
F

L 
33612 

P
S

 
50524 

07/10/2013 
B

urke, S
avita 

07/07/1986 
E

nglew
ood, F

L 
34224 

L33853 

P
S

 
50526 

07/10/2013 
D

esai, D
arshanaben 

N
ikhildev 

03/31/1984 
B

oynton B
each, F

L 
33455 

P
S

 
50527 

P
S

 
50528 

P
S

 
50529 

07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

D
avis, C

hristine 
Louise 

05/26/1 987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity O
f F

londa 

5301 M
cauley D

rive 

655W
 8T

h S
t. 

t300 lnellas S
t M

s #51 

Y
psilanti, M

l 
48197 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32209 

F
L 

33756 

R
odriguez, G

eorge 
D

avid 
S

tash 
M

arie 

06/1 0/1 987 

06/30/1987 

50530 

50531 

50532 

50533 

50534 

50535 

50536 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

07/10/2013 

T
hibodeaux, Logan 

S
cott 

D
unham

, D
aniel 

W
ade 

F
aw

az, T
arek A

li 

G
ejdel, K

atarzyna 

H
o, Lee X

uan 

H
oang, K

im
 N

guyen 

H
uber, D

on R
aynes 

06/24/1988 

08/17/1987 

06/07/1988 

12/23/1980 

01/1 8/1 986 

12/1 4/1 986 

11/15/1967 

05/21/1989 

655 W
. E

ighth S
t. 

4232 N
e O

cean 
B

oulevard 
7405 S

tarkey R
oad 

50537 
07/10/2013 

P
S

 
50538 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32209 

Jensen B
each, F

L 
34957 

Largo, F
L 33777 

07/10/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

Lefranc, A
nnette 

50539 

50540 

07/10/2013 

1650 G
rand C

oncourse 

200 37 A
ve 

N
. 

1601 S
w

A
rcherR

d 
49 P

ine G
rove P

laza 

Luxin, A
ssade 

10/30/1988 

09/12/1983 

B
ronx, N

Y
 

10457 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33704 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32608 

G
rove C

ity, 
P

A
 

16127 

P
S

 
50542 

07/10/2013 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 

7621 
N

 S
tate R

d 7 

1301 S
econdA

veS
w

 

5201 R
aym

ond S
treet 

03/05/1 988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

08/29/1 983 
O

hio S
tate U

niversity 
M

ain C
am

pus 

06/01/1987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

P
arkland, F

L 
33073 

Largo, F
L 

33770 

O
rlando, F

L 32803 

C
learw

ater, F
L 33764 

R
eynoldsburg, O

H
 

43068 

M
acon, G

A
 

31201 

1493 E
xcaliber D

rive 

2675 T
aylor 

R
d S

w
 

777 H
em

lock S
treet 

pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxI5l 5:09112/2013 10:11:37 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualify A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
10:12:30A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 8 of37 

V
arughese, B

ibin 

W
alters, R

yan 
A

ndrew
 

W
orrall, S

tephanie 
07/22/1 987 

D
iana 

C
ullim

ore, R
achel 

09/17/1988 
A

lexandra 

D
ubois, C

laudia Lynn 
11/18/1987 

P
L A

ddress 

2200 G
ulf T

o B
ay B

lvd 

9150 K
ings C

rossing R
d 

601 
E

 R
ollins S

t 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic. p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L Location 

P
S

 
50543 

07/10/2013 
M

iller, Lauren 
Leigh 

11/18/1988 
O

hio N
orthern 

U
niversity 

8383 N
 D

avis H
w

y 
P

ensacola, 
F

L 
32514 

P
S

 
50544 

07/10/2013 
M

unyon, Lindsay 
M

arie 
07/17/1989 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1098 M
ontgom

ery R
oad 

A
ltam

onte S
prings, F

L 
32714 

P
S

 
50545 

07/10/2013 
M

urray, B
ernard 

09/18/1987 
H

ow
ard U

niversity 
13000 B

ruce B
 D

ow
ns 

B
lvd 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33612 

P
S

 
50546 

07/10/2013 
N

ettles, K
im

berly 
N

icole 
06/17/1989 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 

U
niversity 

15911 P
ines B

lvd 
P

em
broke P

ines, F
L 

33027 

P
S

 
50547 

07/10/2013 
P

ane, O
livia R

enee 
01/1 7/1 989 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

807 N
. M

yrtle A
ve. 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33755 

P
S

 
50548 

07/10/2013 

P
S

 
50549 

07/10/2013 

R
oth, C

raig M
atthew

 

S
ainvil, M

agdaline 
D

una 

10/03/1983 

08/21/1 990 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
3099 N

w
 26T

h C
t 

5263 P
alm

 R
idge B

lvd 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33434 

D
elray B

each, F
L 

33484 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50550 
07/10/2013 

S
tone, M

ark D
avid 

10/18/1986 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

701 
6T

h S
t S

 

N
. F

ederal H
ighw

ay 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33701 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 
33306 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33607 

50551 
07/10/2013 

S
w

ift, B
arbara 

A
nnem

arie 
11/10/1986 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50552 

50553 

07/10/2013 

07/11/2013 

G
luniova, A

nastacia 
S

ergeyevna 
02/23/1 987 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

3001 W
. 

D
r. M

.L. K
ing Jr 

B
lvd 

T
rejo, Loreta Ileana 

09/08/1979 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

U
niversity 

2500 S
w

 22N
d S

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33145 

P
S

 
50554 

07/11/2013 
W

alton, Je'Laune 
Latrece 

03/18/1989 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

4500 S
an P

ablo R
oad 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32224 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50555 

50556 

07/11/2013 

07/11/2013 

T
row

bridge, E
rin 

Leigh 
03/22/1 985 

M
ercer U

niversity 
4401 C

om
m

ercial W
ay 

8275 B
ay P

ines B
lvd 

spring H
ill, F

L 
34606 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33709 
V

alentine, S
arah B

eth 
04/12/1988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
S

 
50557 

07/11/2013 
V

arughese, S
ubin 

11/04/1988 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

U
niversity 

3S
 P

om
pano P

kw
y 

P
om

pano B
each, F

L 
33069 

L 
50558 

07/11/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50559 
07/11/2013 

50560 
07/11/2013 

P
S

 
50561 

07/11/2013 

05/09/1 987 

P
S

 
50563 

07/11/2013 

11/10/1989 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
11449 P

alm
etto P

ark R
d 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f G
eorgia 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
S

 
50562 

07/11/2013 
11/25/1985 

U
nry 

14838 W
ind igo Ln 

115 C
reekside D

r. 

O
rlando, F

L 
32828 

U
niversity O

f M
aryland 

S
chool O

f P
harm

acy 

D
allas, G

A
 

30157 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33765 

F
ortM

yers,F
L 

33912 

O
rlando, F

L 
32803 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualify A
ssurance 

M
Q

JX
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/ 1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 9 of37 

P
S

 
50583 

U
nion U

niversity 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 

1611 
N

w
 12T

h A
venue 

6200 S
w

 73R
d S

treet 

13697 W
 C

olonial D
r 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33136 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33143 

W
inter G

arden, F
L 

34787 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of l-Iealth 

pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:09/12/2013 10:11:37 
O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
P

L Location 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50564 

50565 

07/11/2013 

07/11/2013 

G
ranados,_R

onald 

Jones, B
rett A

llen 

03/30/ 
987 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

03/16/1987 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

4600 C
oconut C

reek P
kw

yH
oconut C

reek, F
L 

33063 

3531 T
hom

asville R
d 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32303 

—
 

P
S

 
50566 

07/11/2013 
Levangie, Jaim

ie 
R

yan 
08/27/1 987 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1450 Johns 
Lake R

oad 
C

lerm
ont, F

L 34711 

P
S

 
50567 

P
S

 
50568 

P
S

 
50569 

I 

07/11/2013 
Linn, C

hase 
E

van-M
ichael 

11/13/1987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
2528 

N
 M

cm
ullen B

ooth 
R

d 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33761 

07/11/2013 
M

artinez, M
allory 

D
an le 

10/05/1985 
F

lorida 
1765 G

ulf T
o B

ay 
B

oulevard 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33755 

07/11/2013 
M

oore, Jonathan 
C

harles 
05/07/1988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1670 C
lairm

ont R
d 

D
ecatur, G

A
 30033 

P
S

 
50570 

07/11/2013 
P

atel, R
avin H

em
ant 

P
S

 
50571 

07/11/2013 
T

hom
pson, R

ochelle 
A

lesha 

P
S

 
—

 
50572T

 07/11/2013 
W

estw
ood, B

rittany 

P
S

 
50573 

07/11/2013 
F

ranck, H
ugh 

P
S

 
50574 

07/11/2013 
Lentz, Jaym

e 
M

ichelle 

P
S

t 
50575 

07/11/2013 
D

eogan,N
avdeep 

Ps 
50576 

07/11/2013 
B

aek, H
yeon S

op 

05/19/1987 
A

uburn U
niversity M

ain 
C

am
pus 

09/13/1986 
F

loridaA
&

 M
 

U
niversity 

11/01/1988 

11/07/1984 
N

ova S
outheastern 

10/18/1983 
C

am
pbell U

niversity 
Incorporated 

O
f F

lorida 

05/25/1988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

iooi S
cenic H

w
y 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32503 

12394 P
leasant G

reen 
B

oynton B
each, F

L 
33437 

W
ay 

3001 W
 D

r 
T

am
pa 

F
L 33607 

2324S
e 15T

h S
t. 

O
cala, F

L 
34471 

N
ot P

racticing 
In F

lorida 
T

allahassee, F
L 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
32314-6320 

3880 N
 9T

h A
ve 

P
ensacola, 

F
L 

32503 

P
s 

50577 
07/11/2013 

B
ryant, C

hristina 
M

archan 
03/08/1985 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1451 
E

l C
am

ino R
eal 

T
he V

illages, F
L 

32159 

P
S

 
50578 

07/11/2013 
K

rasilova, Irm
a 

N
 

07/23/1985 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
1950 S

r 19N
 

E
ustis, 

F
L 

32726 

P
S

 
50579 

07/11/2013 
C

hanner, D
ebra A

nne 
10/21/1986 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
21950 S

. T
am

iam
i T

r. 
E

stero, 
F

L 
33928 

P
S

 
50580 

07/11/2013 
F

ahm
i, B

assem
 

07/09/1 975 
M

idw
estern S

tate 
U

niversity 
5000S

. F
ifth A

ve. 
H

ines, 
IL 

60141 

P
S

 
50581 

07/11/2013 

P
S

 
50582 

07/11/2013 

F
rederick, C

orey 
04/18/1988 

M
ichael 

F
uerte, W

ilbert 
10/30/1 980 

Jaci nto 

07/11/2013 

07/11/2013 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

G
necco, C

hristopher 
06/05/1 988 

M
ichael 

G
rant, R

ichard 
D

ennis 
07/17/1960 

U
niversity O

f Illinois A
t 

2020 W
est H

affi son S
treetfc 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 10 of37 

Jenkins, Leakesia 
S

haleem
 

K
anacheril, S

hancy 
V

arghese 
Lund, Jerem

y A
lan 

M
athis, A

lan R
yan 

M
ccray, Lora A

nn 

P
ham

, S
usan M

inh 
N

guyet 

H
eath, R

yan P
reston 

P
ierre-Jean, 

E
m

m
anuelle 

K
icilinski, Lukasz Jan 

B
usey, K

irsten 
V

eronica 
H

arris, Jason 
D

em
etrius 

B
utler, Jesse Ivan 

D
ew

ey, T
odd 

H
 

S
heth, N

eeketa 

P
inder, K

irstin Jade 

S
chneider, 

B
ryan 

V
ictor 

S
orensen, E

rik 
A

ndrew
 

W
endling, 

C
hristopher M

ichael 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

Lake E
rie C

oIl. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

D
avid Lipscom

b 
U

niversity 
M

ercer U
niversity 

11/20/1986 
M

assachusetts C
ollege 

O
f P

har &
 A

llied H
 

07/25/1987 
U

niversity O
f 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 

U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f 
T

ennessee-K
noxville 

S
t. John F

isher C
ollege 

W
egm

ans S
chool O

f 
P

harm
acy 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

N
ova S

outheastern 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 

S
outhern Illinois 

U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f 
W

isconsin-M
adison 

O
hio S

tate U
niversity 

M
ain C

am
pus 

A
tlanta, G

A
 30342 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

P
S

 
50585 

P
S

 

50587 

50588 

07/11/2013 

07/11/2013 

07/11/2013 

07/11/2013 

H
ill, R

enita Jakevia 

H
ogrefe, P

aula Lynn 

05/24/1989 

07/04/1987 

E
D

U
 Institution 

05/23/1981 

09/03/1988 

P
L A

ddress 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50589 

50590 

50591 

50592 

50593 

50594 

50595 

03/1 8/1 987 

08/1 6/1 985 

06/17/1988 

12/26/1988 

12/30/1 987 

03/29/1984 

07/11/2013 

07/11/2013 

07/11/2013 

07/11/2013 

07/12/2013 

07/12/2013 

07/12/2013 

07/12/2013 

07/12/2013 

07/15/2013 

07/15/2013 

P
S

 
50596 

9359 S
heridan S

treet 

5841 
5. M

aryland A
ve 

7410 M
cneil D

r 

K
ings C

rossing R
d 

5255 B
elcher R

oad 

5375 
N

 S
ocrum

 Loop R
d 

N
. C

attlem
en R

d 

2800 S
w

 W
illiston R

d A
pt 

933 
2774 

N
J. C

obb P
kw

y 

73 W
hite H

all D
rive 

12550 P
rofessional P

ark 
D

rive U
nit 

1 

655 W
 E

ight S
treet 

801 
V

assar D
rive N

e 

5151 
N

 9T
h A

ve 

15843 E
. H

w
y 40 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50597 

50598 

50599 

P
L Location 

C
ooper C

ity, F
L 

33024 

C
hicago, IL 

60637 

A
ustin, T

X
 

78729 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33912 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33764 

Lakeland, F
L 

33809 

rS
arasota, F

L 34243 

G
ainesville, 

F
L 

32608 

K
ennesaw

,G
A

 
30152 

P
alm

 C
oast, F

L 
32164 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33913 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32209 

A
lbuquerque, N

M
 

87106 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32504 

S
ilver S

prings, F
L 

34488 

01/13/1981 

03/03/1984 

06/07/1966 

M
arie 

P
S

 
50600 

07/15/2013 

P
S

 
50601 

3 

P
S

 
50602 

07/15/2013 

P
S

 
50603 

07/15/2013 

P
S

 
50604 

07/15/2013 

/201 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 

09/04/1988 

09/21/1986 

03/24/1984 

09/1 8/1 972 

11/19/1964 

1000 Johnson F
erry R

oad 
N

e 

10360 N
w

 60T
h P

lace 
P

arkiand, F
L 33076 

69 Lazy E
ight D

rive 
r P

ort O
range, 

F
L 

32128 

190 F
lorisant R

d 
F

erguson, M
O

 
63134 

1101 N
 lh-35 F

rontage R
d 

G
eorgetow

n, T
X

 
78626 

8825 U
s 42 

U
nion, K

Y
 

41091 

pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxI5l 5:09112/2013 10:11:37 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision ol 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 
11 of37 

Lopez, C
harlotte 

M
arie 

Lopez, B
enjam

in 
M

ichael 
M

artino, Lauren 
T

aylor 

N
oriega, M

elanie 
S

olange 
P

erkins, A
lyce 

M
ildred 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

10/1 4/1 984 
U

niversity O
f 

M
ississippi M

ain 

05/24/1 989 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

01/01/1986 

06/03/1984 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

1810 N
w

 23R
d B

lvd A
pt 

186 
8383 N

orth D
avis H

ighw
ay 

28740 S
 D

ixie H
w

y 

1820 C
heney H

ighw
ay 

2640 S
 U

niversity D
r #101 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_licpdxl5l5:09112/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
50606 

07/15/2013 
W

oods, G
regory 

S
cott 

05/21/1985 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
3212 N

w
 17T

h S
t 

G
ainesville, F

L 32605 

P
S

 
50607 

07/15/2013 

07/15/2013 

B
aron, B

rianna 
01/31/1 989 

S
uny A

t B
uffalo 

N
 W

oodland B
lvd 

15851 N
 W

 11T
h S

treet 

D
eland, F

L 32720 

P
em

broke P
ines, 

F
L 

33028 
P

S
 

50608 
B

ennett, S
haronda 

Lakeisha 
04/19/1987 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 

P
S

 
50609 

07/15/2013 
C

heung, K
evin B

rian 
02/16/1989 

U
niversity O

f R
hode 

Island 
6117 C

rystal V
iew

 D
rive 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

P
S

 
50610 

07/15/2013 
D

avenport, P
atrick 

07/17/1982 
D

avid Lipscom
b 

301 M
em

orial M
edical 

D
aytona B

each, 
F

L 

P
S

 
50611 

07/15/2013 
E

vans, D
arren D

eon 
06/19/1989 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 

U
niversity 

8018 N
orm

andy B
lvd 

Jacksonville, 
F

L 
32221 

P
S

 
50612 

07/15/2013 
B

arr, D
rakeria N

ate 
01/06/1988 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
4252 S

w
 20T

h S
t. 

1160 S
 D

ixie H
w

y 

W
est P

ark, F
L 

33023 

C
oral G

ables, F
L 

33146 
P

S
 

P
S

 

50613 

50614 

07/15/2013 

07/15/2013 

E
strada, K

atherine 
Louise 
E

isenm
an, R

obert 
M

elvin 

12/12/1985 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

01/24/1954 
M

ercer U
niversity 

iio H
aw

thorne A
ve 

A
thens, G

A
 30606 

T
am

arac, F
L 

33321 
P

S
 

50615 
07/15/2013 

F
ernandez, Jennifer 

M
arie 

12/09/1 986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

100004 W
 M

cnab R
d 

P
S

 
50616 

07/15/2013 
H

epler, E
m

ily Lauren 
04/27/1989 

D
uquesne U

niversity 
3771 C

lyde M
orris B

lvd 

1179 Iron B
ridge R

oad 

4109 Lazy A
cres R

d 

P
ort O

range, F
L 

32129 

H
avana, F

L 
32333 

P
S

 
50617 

07/15/2013 
Javanm

ardi, C
am

eron 
A

sfeh 
05/13/1980 

F
loridaA

&
 M

 
U

niversity 

10/16/1983 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

10/27/1 986 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

M
iddleburg, F

L 
32068 

Jasper, 
F

L 32052 

P
S

 
50618 

07/15/2013 

07/15/2013 

S
m

ith, E
vgenia 

P
S

 
50619 

D
aniels, M

elissa 
D

ionne 
7924 U

.S
. H

w
y 129 S

outh 

P
S

 
50620 

07/15/2013 

P
S

 
50621 

07/15/2013 

P
S

 
50622 

11/02/1988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

P
S

 
50623 

07/15/2013 

03/23/1988 
1 U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

P
S

 
50624 

07/15/2013 

P
S

 

6025 S
e U

s H
ighw

ay 301 

50625 
07/15/2013 

R
avani, P

ankajkum
ar 

D
 

H
aw

thorne, F
L 

32640 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32605 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32514 

H
om

estead, F
L 

33033 

T
itusville, F

L 
32780 

D
avie, F

L 33328 



D
ivision 

M
edical G

uolity A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

R
egalado, C

arlos 
01/11/1988 

A
lberto 

S
antana, E

lizabeth 
E

aster 

IS
nyder, B

radley 
1 

J 
C

ho, Jonathan C
hang 

H
yuk 

-- 
R

enee 

07/16/2013 
C

harles, M
iriam

 
01/18/1979 

K
endra 

07/16/2013 
C

hinyere Laura 
09/10/1987 

07/16/2013 
W

illiam
s, C

rystal 
12/13/1987 

L 

07/16/2013 
D

ikas, R
aphael 

12/21/1984 
C

hinedu 
J 

07/16/2013 
A

ltepeter, S
tephanie 

08/18/1987 

07/16/2013 
C

aldas, D
asha 

07/15/1963 

07/16/2013 
Jock, M

elissa Joy 
11/05/1976 

07/16/2013 
K

arasiew
icz, R

achael 
03/22/1989 

N
icole 

07/16/2013 
j K

iner, H
alley Jennifer 

05/23/1984 

07/16/2013 
M

ilano, Joseph 
09/05/1 986 

07/16/2013 
S

aettele, T
onia A

nn 
02/1 8/1 989 

07/16/2013 
11987 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 

U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 
U

niversity O
f T

he 
P

acific - T
hom

as J. 
Long S

chool O
f 

P
harm

acy &
 H

ealth 
S

ciences 
U

niversity O
f 

C
alifornia-S

an 
F

rancisco 
S

t Louis C
ollege O

f 
P

harm
acy 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

F
lorida A

 &
 

M
 

U
niversity 

H
usson U

niversity 

B
utler U

niversity 

28 N
. B

rookw
od A

ve 

1708 N
 M

onroe S
t 

613 O
ld F

orest W
ay R

d 

6358 F
orest 

H
ill B

lvd 

3001 
V

V
. D

r. 
M

artin Luther 
K

ing B
lvd 

P
resbytarian H

ospital 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

5647 R
oosevelt B

lvd 

O
hio N

orthern 
13401 S

um
m

erlin R
d 

U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1011 B
loom

ingdale A
ve 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

133670 U
s H

w
y 19 

S
t Louis C

ollege O
f 

I B
aptist H

ealth 
P

harm
acy 

S
t Louis C

ollege O
f 

I 
—

 
'8183 T

ham
es B

oulevard 
P

harm
acy 

A
partm

ent B
 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2201 
: Pharm

acist 
7/ 1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 

07/15/2013 

07/15/2013 

07/i 5/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 12 of37 

PL
 A

ddress 
P

L Location 

06/29/1989 

12/06/1985 

11/06/1989 

2111 
E

. B
usch B

lvd 

1120 B
ichara B

lvd 

416 C
lem

atis S
t. 

12042 G
ranite W

oods 
Loop 

12902 M
agnolia D

rive 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33612 

T
he V

illages, F
L 

32159 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33401 

V
enice, F

L 
34292 

I 

50627 

P
S

 
—

t 
50628 

P
S

 
50629 

P
S

 
50631 

P
S

 
50632 

P
S

 
50634 

P
S

 
50636 

P
S

 
50637 

P
S

 
50638 

P
S

 
50639 

P
S

 
50640 

P
S

 
50641 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33612 

S
t. John'S

 U
niversity N

ew
 

Y
ork 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32303 

P
anam

a C
ity, F

L 
32404 

1 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33415 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33607 
1 

C
harlotte, N

C
 

28204 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32210 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33919 
1 

V
alrico, F

L 
33594 

P
alm

 H
arbor, F

L 
34684 

I 

P
alatka, F

L 
32177 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32207 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33433 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualily A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/ 1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 
13 of37 

B
irth D

ate 

11/1 2/1 979 

W
erling, M

atthew
 

01/13/1982 
M

arshall 

W
illiam

s, S
herifa 

C
hristina 

A
l-Q

aisi, F
araed Q

ais 

R
aym

ond 

F
ant, E

rika H
olly 

Lorvinsky, E
den 

Lorna 
G

reen, R
obert 

W
illiam

 
Liu, E

sther C
hern-A

i 

Lloyd, D
anielle 

A
lexandra 

Lopilato, A
lex C

hase 

C
ourage, Jonathan 

M
itsuo 

Long, M
egan C

orey 

S
nyder, K

atherine 
M

arie 
O

ni, A
m

anda H
udson 

S
chneider, F

rances 
A

dele 
S

hin, June H
eeyon 

G
olden, S

hara 
M

elissa 
- 

B
ryant, D

evin Levon 

M
ohan, A

nn M
arie 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 

U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f R
hode 

Island 

R
utgers T

he S
tate 

U
niversity C

entral O
ff 

W
est V

irginia 
U

niversity 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

O
hio N

orthern 
U

niversity 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

S
outhern 

Illinois 
U

niversity 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 

U
niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

H
ow

ard U
niversity 

P
L A

ddress 

501 6T
h A

ve S
outh 

1106 S
andIer R

idge 
R

oad 

575 W
 M

adison S
t T

ow
er 

#2, A
pt #3712 

2528 N
 M

cm
ullen B

ooth 
R

d 

2132 D
olphin B

lvd S
 

294 Indian T
race 

11212 D
ale M

abry 
H

ighw
ay 

1 T
am

pa G
eneral C

ircle 

1414 K
uhI A

ve 

1 
T

am
pa G

eneral C
ircle 

3502 54T
h A

venue S
outh 

4434 G
earheart R

d #302 

125 E
. 

M
ain S

t 

1821 
E

 B
ridge S

t 

305 G
lenw

ood D
rive 

P
L Location 

C
hicago, IL 

60617 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33701 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32317 

C
hicago, IL 

60661 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxI5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 O

N
D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

50645 
P

S
 

P
S

 

07/16/2013 
Iran, K

im
 T

hanh 

3 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 

V
irginia 

C
om

m
onw

ealth 
U

niversity 
D

rake U
niversity 

2924 
E

. 92N
d S

treet 

50647 

50648 

50649 

50650 

50651 

50652 

50653 

07/16/2013 

07/16/2013 

07/16/2013 

07/16/2013 

07/16/2013 

07/16/2013 

07/16/2013 

10/20/1 989 

06/11/1976 

07/29/1 981 

12/04/1 988 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 

U
niversity 

F
oreign S

chools 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50654 
07/16/2013 

50655 

50656 
07/16/2013 

50657 
07/16/2013 

50658 
07/16/2013 

50659 
07/16/2013 

50660 
07/1 612013 

50661 
07/16/2013 

50662 
07/16/2013 

50663 
07/16/2013 

06/18/1988 

03/15/1989 

08/11/1989 

02/24/1989 

02/12/1988 

12/29/1 988 

11/24/1986 

01/1 4/1 988 

10/11/1979 

05/01/1987 

06/27/1989 

01/29/1982 

07/11/1986 

10/1 5/1 984 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33761 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33707 

W
eston, F

L 
33326 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33618 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33606 

O
rlando, F

L 
32806 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33606 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33711 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32303 

B
righton, C

O
 

80601 

G
len C

arbon, IL 
62034 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32311 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33431 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32301 

P
alm

 B
each G

ardens, F
L 

33410 

3228 W
hitm

an W
ay 

lN
O

cean B
lvd 

#1507E
 

2
2
6
0
 E
a
s
t
 P
a
r
k
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 

1
1
0
0
0
 N
 
M
i
l
i
t
a
r
y
 
T
r
a
i
l
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical O

uality A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 14 of 37 

50683 
07/18/2013 

E
w

ing, C
hristopher 

R
ay 

03/1 8/1 981 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

04/1 7/1 988 
U

niversity O
f 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.pdxl515:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

1 A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50665 
07/17/2013 

S
killm

an, K
athleen 

I 

R
ose 

04/20/1987 
A

lbany C
ollege O

f 
P

harm
acy 

9578 H
arding A

ve 
S

uriside, F
L 

33154 

50666 
07/17/2013 

B
rooks, R

enetta 
Leigharnette 

07/05/1 988 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

. 

1250 G
reenview

 S
hores 

B
lvd 

W
ellington, F

L 
33414 

P
S

 
50667 

I 07/17/2013 
T

aylor, 
M

ax-A
lexander 

09/09/1 987 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

U
niversity 

214 
N

 D
ixie H

w
y 

Lake W
orth, F

L 
33460 

P
S

 
50668 

07/17/2013 
Z

licha, A
riel S

hlom
o 

07/30/1 985 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

5900 S
tate R

d 7 
Lake W

orth, F
L 

33449 

P
S

 
50669 

p5 
50670 

07/17/2013 

07/17/2013 

G
lover, B

rittany 
C

hristine 
M

m
, H

an 
- 

04/04/1 989 

03/12/1982 

S
outh C

arolina C
ollege 

O
f P

harm
acy 

175 F
orum

 D
r 

200 S
outh S

tate R
oad 434 

C
olum

bia, 
S

C
 29229 

A
ltam

onte S
prings, F

L 
32714 

O
w

ensboro, K
Y

 
42301 

2318 F
rederica S

t 
S

tew
art, 

Jebidah 
D

anner 
02/24/1981 

P
S

 
50672 

07/17/2013 
G

arrison, M
ark Jacob 

03/09/1985 
U

niversity O
f A

rkansas 
F

or M
edical S

cien 
720 S

 S
apodilla A

ve #403 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
1 

33401 

P
S

 

ps 

P
S

 

50674 

50675 

07/17/2013 
07/17/2013 

07/17/2013 

H
elen 

W
itherow

, M
ichael 

A
nthony 

B
ergin, Jonathan 

11/16/1983 
3742 T

errapin Lane #2107 

11494 B
onita B

each R
d 

#96 

C
oral S

pnngs 
F

L 
33067 

08/27/1988 
O

hio N
orthern 

U
niversity 

B
onita S

prings, F
L 

34135 

09/27/1 986 

11/17/1982 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

M
assachusetts C

ollege 
O

f P
har &

 A
llied 

H
 

6160 26T
h A

ve N
 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

2598 B
ayshore B

lvd 
D

unedin, F
L 

34698 
I 

P
S

 
50676 

07/17/2013 
B

eshal, A
m

y 

P
S

 
50677 

50678 

07/17/2013 1 C
ooper, M

elanie 
B

rooke 
05/02/1 982 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1077 Lee-Jackson H
w

y 
S

taunton, V
A

 24401 
I 

790 V
eterans W

ay 
1 

F
L 

32507 
07/17/2013 

S
exton 

09/18/1989 
S

O
uth U

fliV
erS

rty 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50679 

50680 

07/17/2013 

07/17/2013 

D
eshpande, S

w
apna 

E
jiow

hor, N
yem

achi 
C

rystal 

03/12/1977 
U

ruversity O
f F

lorida 
8 N

w
 M

ain S
t 

W
illiston, F

L 
32696 

- 

02/16/1986 
H

ow
ard U

niversity 
753 N

ight O
w

l C
ourt 

W
inter S

prings, F
L 

32708 

P
S

 
50681 

07/17/2013 
Jacob, S

teven 
06/07/1 989 

D
rake U

niversity 
705 

N
 P

ebble B
each B

lvd 
S

un C
ity C

enter, F
L 

33573 

P
S

 
50682 

07/18/2013 
E

ljera, M
ichael 

V
incent 

10/11/1985 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
1141 K

endall T
ow

n B
lvd 

#6107 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32225 

P
S

 

P
S

 
50684 

07/18/2013 
B

utler, S
arah 

F
itzgerald 

T
ennessee-C

entral 
O

ffice 

460 N
ew

ton P
lace 

2237 W
est N

ine M
ile R

d 

Longw
ood, F

L 
32779 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32534 



P
S

 
50685 

07/18/2013 
G

anesh, O
m

joy 
K

um
ar 

B
ushong, S

tephanie 
Jade 
F

ricks, M
atthew

 
R

obert 
G

riffin, B
rian C

harles 

W
alters, E

rika A
nne 

P
S

 
50704 

07/18/2013 
W

illiam
s, C

heryl-A
nn 

N
attiline 

P
S

 
50705 

07/18/2013 
W

illiam
s, S

herry 
N

ichelle 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

04/22/1976 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 

D
avid Lipscom

b 
U

niversity 

D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

50686 

50687 

07/18/2013 

07/18/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

G
azzia, Lauryn 

R
achel 

H
uynh, V

u P
hung 

E
D

U
 Institution 

50688 

50689 

05/1 5/1 987 

02/10/1984 

S
ort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 
15 of37 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

07/18/2013 

07/18/2013 

Johnson, K
ionna S

 

K
ong, B

en Ling 

50690 

1329 N
w

 16 S
t. S

uite 
2170 

07/18/2013 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32608 

1700 S
. T

am
iam

i T
rail 

3501 Johnson S
treet 

615 Love A
ve 

50691 

50692 

50693 

50694 

50695 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

U
niversity O

f 
W

isconsin-M
adison 

S
arasota, F

L 34239 

H
ollyw

ood, F
L 

33021 

07/18/2013 

07/18/2013 

07/18/2013 

07/18/2013 

07/18/2013 

Lee, S
tedm

an 
Jerm

aine 
M

orales, R
osana 

A
dom

, A
tta K

w
asi 

N
kansah 

M
organ, N

ora D
unne 

P
atel, Jigna 

06/30/1974 

01/14/1989 

12/06/1 986 

07/10/1982 

08/23/1989 

06/04/1985 

50697 

50698 

07/18/2013 

07/18/2013 

U
niversity 

11/09/1986 
O

regon S
tate 

1600 S
w

 A
rcher R

d 
G

ainesville, 
F

L 
32608 

K
ue, M

ay H
erning 

2440 W
est M

ason S
treet 

G
reen B

ay, W
I 

54303 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
1848 F

arm
er R

oad 
C

onyers, G
A

 
30012 

U
niversity 

________ 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
300 W

 S
ugarland H

w
y 

C
lew

iston, F
L 

33440 

- 
N

ova S
outheastern 

6997 C
ollege C

ourt A
pt 

D
avie, F

L 
33317 

U
niversity 

205 
O

 
1601 A

rcher R
d 

G
ainesville, 

F
L 

32608 
P

harm
acy 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
11000 36T

h S
treet 

V
ero B

each, F
L 32960 

U
niversity 

50696 
07/18/2013 

P
iette, N

icole M
arie 

01/16/1987 
S

t Johns C
ollege M

ain 
611 

S
t. Joseph A

ve 
r M

arshfield, W
I 

54449 
C

am
pus 

10/03/1976 
.T

 
1/19/1978 

-- 
T

am
pa 

F
L 

33621 
P

harm
acy 

P
S

 
50699 

07/18/2013 
11/12/1988 

W
est V

irginia 
9150 K

ings C
rossing R

d 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33912 

P
S

 
50700 

07/18/2013 
. 

1852 G
ulf B

reeze P
kw

y 
G

ulf B
reeze, F

L 
32561 

U
nverty 

- 
09/04/1987 

U
niversity O

f G
eorgia 

4500 S
an P

ablo R
oad 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32224 

04/19/1987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
—

 
- 

16432 E
dgem

ont D
rive 

M
yers 

F
L 

33908 

02/29/1972 
N

ova S
outheastern 

1900 S
outh S

r 7 
H

ollyw
ood, F

L 
33023 

- 
- 

07/22/1981 
C

hicago S
tate 

12902 M
agnolia D

rive 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33612 - 

pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 
O

N
D

 

S
im

pson, C
hristopher 

Jam
es 

H
unziker, S

tephanie 
Jane 
U

llm
an, S

eth W
ilbert 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50701 

50702 

50703 

07/18/2013 

07/18/2013 

07/18/2013 

05/05/1987 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uaiity A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

a rt R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/ 1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 16of37 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

50726 
07/23/2013 

M
itrani, A

dam
 S

am
uel 

05/23/1986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 

1
2
9
1
1
 
E
 F
o
w
l
e
r
 A
v
e
 

P
L Location 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33612 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_licp_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

P
S

 
50706 

P
S

 
50707 

P
S

 
50708 

07/18/2013 
W

fflis, 
Lynn 

08/i0/1985j U
ruversity O

f G
eorgia 

L1920 C
ounty R

oad 581 

2302 Jim
 R

edm
an P

kw
y 

C
hapel, 

F
L 

33544 

07/18/2013 
F

isher, G
eorge Irving 

Ii 

07/03/1989 
H

am
pton U

niversity 
S

chool O
f P

harm
acy 

P
lant C

ity, F
L 

33563 

07/18/2013 
H

aynick, M
arshall 

D
avid 

05/17/1987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

4 

1611 
N

w
 12T

h A
ve 

M
iam

i, 
F

L 33136 

P
S

 
50709 

07/18/2013 
K

urian, K
evin 

12/22/1 988 
N

ova S
outheastern 

y 
9728 N

w
 1S

t M
anor 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33071 

193 O
ld O

ak C
ircle 

P
alm

 H
arbor, F

L 
34683 

14000 U
s H

w
y I 

N
orth P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33404 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50710 
07/18/2013 

M
alo, F

rank Jam
es 

10/29/1985 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

50711 
07/18/2013 

P
ickens, M

elvin S
 Jr 

10/14/1985 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

P
S

 
50712 

07/18/2013 
T

ran, Jackie 

07/18/2013 
W

oeber, M
atthew

 

07/19/2013 
B

utkevich, Z
inaida 

02/11/1988 
U

niversity O
f M

aryland 
S

chool O
f P

harm
acy 

L 
11/24/1984 

U
niversity O

f
 F
l
o
r
i
d
a
 

06/26/1988 
LU

niversity O
f F

lorida 

1600 S
w

 A
rcher R

d 

1324 Lakeland H
ills B

lvd 

601 
E

. C
om

m
ercial B

lvd 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32610 

Lakeland, F
L 

33805 
P

S
 

50713 

P
S

 
50714 

P
S
 

5
0
7
1
5
 

0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

M
a
t
h
a
i
,
 A
n
u
p
 K
 

0
1
/
0
9
/
1
9
8
7
 

P
a
l
m
 B
e
a
c
h
 
A
t
l
a
n
t
i
c
 

U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 

6
7
0
 E
O
a
k
l
a
n
d
 P
a
r
k
 B
l
v
d
 

O
a
k
l
a
n
d
 P
a
r
k
,
 F
L
 
3
3
3
3
4
 

P
S
 

5
0
7
1
6
 

0
7
/
1
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

V
i
l
a
,
 
I
v
a
n
 

07/19/2013 
K

ish, M
ilena 

1
2
/
2
8
/
1
9
8
4
 

08/1 8/1 970 

N
o
v
a
 S
o
u
t
h
e
a
s
t
e
r
n
 

1250 P
rovidence B

lvd 

100 G
rand C

ove W
ay A

pt 
5C

 

D
eltona, F

L 
32725 

E
dgew

ater, N
J 

07020 
- 

P
S

 
50717 

S
t Johns C

ollege M
ain 

C
am

pus 

ps 
F

 
50718 

I 

P
S

 
50719 

P
S

 
1 

50720 

07/22/2013 
H

ernandez, Jason 
E

dw
ard 

12/27/1 974 
U

niversity O
f T

exas A
t 

A
ustin 

N
ot P

racticing 
In F

lorida 
P

 0 B
ox 6320 

T
allahassee, F

L 
323 14-6320 

07/22/2013 

07/22/2013 

O
karo, O

sanem
e 

C
huka 

M
araldo, G

ene P
eter 

10/25/1985 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

13053 C
ortez B

lvd 
B

rooksville, F
L 

34613 

11/13/1964 
P

hiladelphia C
ollege 

O
f P

harm
acy A

nd S
d 

3535 
N

 T
am

iam
i T

rail 
S

arasota, F
L 

34234 

P
S

 
50721 

07/22/2013 
W

alsh, C
onor 

T
hom

as 
02/1 2/1 988 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

100 N
 M

iraniar 
Indialantic, F

L 
32903 

P
S

 
50722 

07/22/2013 
M

ahfuz, S
ultan 

08/11/1988 
N

ova S
outheastern 

7534 Lake W
orth R

d 
Lake W

orth, 
F

L 
33467 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S
 

50723 

50724 

50725 

07/22/2013 

07/23/2013 

07/23/2013 

A
costa, S

hana 
09/1 6/1 984 

K
rieger 

N
icole 

0
1
/
0
9
/
1
9
8
6
 

P
eil, A

aron T
im

othy 
09/16/1985 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity &
M

 
U

niversity 
O

hio S
tate U

niversity 

23682 U
s H

w
y 19 N

orth 

S
e 18T

h A
ve 

C
learw

ater, F
L 33765 

B
oynton B

each, F
L 

33435 

7101 
R

adio R
d 

N
aples, F

L 
34104 

P
S

 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

Pvt 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 
P

age 
17 of 37 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
- 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50727 
07/23/2013 

Lyn, A
isheik Jam

ie 
12/1 5/1 983 

H
arding U

niveristy 
14000 U

s H
ighw

ay 
1 

Juno B
each, F

L 
33408 

50728 
07/23/2013 

T
hakkar, 

C
hintankum

ar 
A

rvindbhai 

10/26/1985 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

f . 

2640 S
 U

niversity D
r A

pt 
#101 

D
avie, 

F
L 

33328 

50729 
07/23/2013 

B
enedikt, D

anielle 
E

lyse 
08/1 0/1 987 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
3580 N

 F
ederal H

w
y 

Lighthouse P
oint, 

F
L 

33064 

P
S

 
50730 

07/23/2013 
R

eddy, S
w

athi 
G

 
06/06/1979 
. 

M
assachusetts C

ollege 
O

f P
har &

 A
llied 

H
 

N
ot P

racticing In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
T

allahassee, F
L 

323 14-6320 

P
S

 
50731 

07/23/2013 
F

reese, R
ebecca 

A
nne 

03/26/1 989 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
15880 S

an C
arlos B

lvd 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33908 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 
1 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50732 J 
50733 

07/23/2013 

I 
07/25/2013 

S
m

ith, N
akeisha 

12/24/1 986 
D

anyelle 
G

aylord, K
evin Lee 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. B
each 

ic 
U

niversity 

2039 N
. M

eridian R
d #177 

301 
N

. A
lexander S

t 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32303 

P
lant C

ity, F
L 

33563 

W
ellington, F

L 
3 

50734 
07/25/2013j A

xteiLsam
antha 

D
aw

n 
/19 

50735 

50736 

50737 

50738 

50739 

50740 

50741 

50742 

07/25/2013 

{ 07/25/2013 

07/25/2013 

07/25/2013 

07/25/2013 

A
zis, A

m
anda 

01/12/1986 
A

lbany C
ollege O

f 

B
etarico, Linda 

10/17/1974 
f U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
Idarela 
B

hakta, 
11/22/1986 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

H
arivadankum

ar 
N

arendra 
C

unningham
, K

athryn 
06/08/1987 

U
niversity O

f T
oledo 

1 

M
ae 

I 

C
huang, S

hu-H
ui 

10/28/1984 
M

ercer U
niversity 

D
ang, C

hinh T
hi K

ieu 
09/12/1983 

N
ova S

outheastern 

D
e La B

arrera, 
01/07/1978 

N
ova S

outheastern 

D
ebraganca, R

yan 
09/11/1984 

N
ova S

outheastern 
W

alter 
I 

U
niversity 

2225 D
ancy T

rail 
- 

13870 E
agle R

idge Lakes 
D

r #101 

C
lerm

ont, F
L 

34714 
---- 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33912 

io Y
vonne C

ourt 

2333 B
iddle A

ve 

1160 M
alabar R

d S
e 

H
avana, F

L 
32333 

W
yandotte, M

I 
48192 

P
alm

 B
ay, F

L 
32907 

07/25/2013 

07/25/2013 

07/25/2013 

602W
 M

ain S
t 

Inverness, F
L 

34450 

2599 S
.W

. 147 A
ve 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33185 

1150 N
e 26T

h S
t 

W
ilton M

anors, F
L 

33305 

- P
S

 
50743 

07/25/2013 
D

ow
d, C

aitlin M
arie 

07/28/1989 
U

niversity O
f R

hode 
1601 S

w
 A

rcher R
d 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32608 

Island 

F
b 

N
i 

03/0 
19 

P
alm

 B
each 

K
risten 

U
niversity 

P
S

 
50745 

07/25/2013 
D

em
ps, Jonathan 

09/26/1985 
N

ova S
outheastern 

1740 P
alm

 C
ove B

lvd A
pt 

I 
D

elray B
each, F

L 
33445 

R
aym

ond 
U

niversity 
201 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 
18 of37 

Jernigan, M
eredith 

G
rey 

M
essinger, 

M
im

er, A
bena 

N
yarkoa 

M
itchell, N

atasha 
K

atherine 

09/1 8/1 962 
U

niversity O
f T

he 
P

acific 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f N
orth 

C
arolina C

hapel H
ill 

08/07/1987 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

05/27/1975 
1 T

em
ple U

niversity 

U
niversity 

N
ot P

racticing In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
4617 B

ougainvilla D
r 

650 C
linic D

r S
uite 2100 

4400 N
w

 103 D
rive 

N
ot P

racticing In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
732 W

oodyard R
d 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32314-6320 

Lauderdale B
y T

he S
e, F

L 
33308 

M
obile, A

L 
36688 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33065 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32314-6320 

D
efuniak S

prings, F
L 

32435 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
j 

50746 

P
S

 
50747 

I 

07/25/2013 

07/25/2013 

G
arbizo, M

onica 

H
oenstine, A

shley 
M

orefi 

09/26/1 987 

09/07/1 985 

10/13/1986 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1305 N
. U

niversity D
r 

2871 
C

layton C
rossing 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33071 

O
viedo, 

F
L 

32765 

W
ilton M

anors, F
L 

33071 
P

S
 

50748 
07/25/2013 

Jacobs, A
ndrew

 
T

hom
as 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
1150 N

e 26T
h S

t 

- 
p5 

50749 
07/25/2013 

Le, V
ictoria Lanchi 

11/04/1988 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

1025 G
rove P

ark C
ircle 

B
oynton B

each, F
L 

33436 
U

niversity 

P
S

 
50750 

07/25/2013 
C

adet, G
uesline J 

04/02/1987 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

200 S
w

 13T
h S

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33130 

P
S

 
50751 

I 
07/25/2013 

Lee, T
roy Jackson 

06/29/1 971 
C

am
pbell U

niversity 
30 G

arfield S
treet S

uite B
 

A
sheville, 

N
C

 
28803 

Incorporated 

P
S

 
50752 

07/25/2013 
M

cfarlane, Jessica 
07/25/1 988 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
5388 E

ast Leitner D
rive 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33067 
Joan 

U
niversity 

P
S

 
50753 

07/25/2013 
D

unaw
ay, S

haina 
07/21/1 981 

U
niversity O

f 
144 S

. T
hom

as 
S

t. S
uite 

T
upelo, M

S
 

38801 
N

icole 
M

ississippi M
ain 

ioi-i 
C

am
pus 

P
S

 
50754 

07/25/2013 
G

olding, C
assalee 

P
 

01/1 3/1 988 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

7910 N
w

 27T
h A

ve 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33147 

—
 

P
S

 
50755 

1 

07/25/2013 
G

orski, E
lizabeth 

01/1 3/1 986 
U

niversity O
f Illinois A

t 
9600 G

ross P
oint R

oad 
S

kokie, IL 
60076 

K
im

berly 
C

hicago 

P
S

 
50756 

07/25/2013 
G

uzm
an, G

race M
ary 

03/12/1986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

5535W
 12T

h C
ourt 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33012 

U
niversity 

P
S

 
50757 

07/25/2013 
E

rhan, A
nalisa C

an 
06/26/1 989 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

4271 C
helsea H

arbor 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32224 

D
rive W

est 

P
S

 
50758 

07/25/2013 
H

eng, S
okety 

04/17/1984 
N

ova S
outheastern 

566 Lancer O
ak D

rive 
A

popka, 
F

L 
32712 

U
niversity 

P
S

 
50759 

107/25/2013 
H

older, M
artina 

12/02/1986 
P

urdue U
niversity M

ain 
1600 S

w
 A

rcher R
d 

'G
ainesville, F

L 
32610 

C
am

pus 

P
S

 
50760 

07/25/2013 
C

hiaro, M
aria E

laine 

--—
--. 

P
S

 
50763 

07/25/2013 

06/03/1988 

04/1 3/1 986 

P
S

 
50764 

P
S

 
50765 

07/25/2013 

07/25/2013 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxlsl 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page l9of37 

N
arcisse, G

ilianne 

P
ersad, A

nand 

R
einhartz, Lucas 

D
onovan 

S
chm

idt, R
obert 

W
oodrow

 

07/26/2013 
V

aliente, C
indy 

Y
e, X

iaochun 

H
 

H
andw

erk, A
lyssa 

K
risty 

M
errill, D

avid Joseph 

S
m

ith, K
areem

a B
ilan 

S
teinlage, C

hantel 

W
hitter, R

ichard 
W

ilberforce 
A

cheam
pong, F

rancis 

A
gbenow

u, S
enyo 

K
ojo 

A
im

assian, H
alleh 

07/26/2013 
A

lonso, Jessica 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 

O
hio S

tate U
niversity 

M
ain C

am
pus 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

P
hiladelphia C

ollege 
O

f P
harm

acy A
nd S

ci 

N
ew

 E
ngland C

ollege 
O

f P
harm

acy 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 

18261 
N

 E
 7T

h C
t 

5451 M
ilienia Lakes B

lvd 
A

pt 161 
1700 S

 F
ederal H

w
y 

2438 Laurel 
R

d E
 

1970 R
oanoke B

lvd 

10001 S
heridan S

t 

3831 4T
h S

t N
 

2811 
C

lark R
d 

P
L Location 

N
orth M

iam
i B

each, F
L 

33162 

O
rlando, F

L 
32839 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 
33316 
V

enice, 
F

L 
34275 

S
alem

, V
A

 
24153 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33155 

C
ooper C

ity, F
L 

33024 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33703 

S
arasota, 

F
L 

34231 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33611 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32608 

M
iam

i, 
F

L 33176 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33076 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkgjpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

P
S

 
50767 

07/25/2013 

P
S

 
50769 

09/01/1984 

P
S

 
50766 

07/25/2013 
M

oreland, A
ngela 

M
arie 

08/19/1 968 
H

am
pton U

niversity 
S

chool O
f P

harm
acy 

620 John P
aul Jones 

C
ircle 

P
ortsm

outh, V
A

 
23708 

P
S

 
50770 

P
S

 
50768 

07/25/2013 
P

arikh, P
riya R

 
12/11/1988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

07/25/2013 

07/25/2013 

P
S

 

06/08/1976 

50771 
07/26/2013 

P
S

 
50772 

11/25/1985 

07/30/1985 

P
S

 
50773 

07/26/2013 

04/25/1985 

07/26/2013 

P
S

 
50775 

07/26/2013 

P
S

 
1
5
0
7
7
6
 

02/07/1978 

12/24/1984 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50777 
07/26/2013 

8695 C
oral W

ay 

50778 

06/06/1989 

04/08/1989 

50779 

07/26/2013 

07/26/2013 

P
a
t
e
l
,
 
D
i
p
a
l
i
 H
a
r
i
s
h
 

0
9
/
1
 9
/
1
 9
8
6
 

P
S
 

50780 
07/26/2013 

08/03/1983 

P
S
 

50781 
07/26/2013 

09/28/1984 

12/02/1 9
8
6
 

0
2
/
1
2
/
1
9
7
8
 

P
S

 
50782 

07/26/2013 

P
S

 
50783 

07/26/2013 

128 E
B

randon B
lvd 

B
randon,F

L 
33511 

P
S

 

4401 W
 G

andy B
lvd 

2330 S
w

 W
illiston R

oad 
A

pt 2
6
3
1
 

9
0
3
1
 

S
w

 107T
h A

ve 

50784 

04/12/1982 

10/25/1983 

10725 W
iles R

oad 

1
1
/
0
3
/
1
9
8
1
 

Jaquita 
L 

I.Jniversity 

C
reighton U

niversity 

7000 N
ova D

rive A
pt 307E

j D
avie, F

L 
3
3
3
1
7
 

7
0
0
0
 N

ova D
rive A

pt 1 D
avie, F

L 
3331 7 

690 N
W

57T
h A

ve 
M

iam
i, F

L
 
3
3
1
2
6
 

2
0
3
4
5
 O
l
d
 
C
u
t
l
e
r
 R
d
 

B
o
x
 1
4
4
2
1
 

M
i
a
m
i
,
 F
L
 
3
3
1
8
9
 

T
a
l
l
a
h
a
s
s
e
e
,
 
F
L
 
3
2
3
1
7
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 20 of37 

P
S

 
50802 

07/26/2013 

F
 

P
S

 
50804 

07/26/2013 

D
esai, H

em
al 

D
o, P

atricia T
huy 

E
isen m

an, M
elissa 

G
iancarelli, A

m
anda 

Jo 

H
incapie C

astillo, 
Juan M

anuel 

lnza, M
ichael T

hom
as 

I 06/29/1 987 

K
ing, C

am
ille 

Jeanette 
Lam

, M
aria 

C
oncepcion P

uro 

Lopez, A
relys M

aria 

Lopez, O
sm

ar R
ay 

Luces, C
ristina M

aria 

M
ann, Jonathan 

M
ehta, N

iravkum
ar 

M
itrani, A

rlen D
avid 

R
odriguez, Jeanette 

N
iurka 

S
nyderm

an, 
B

rett 
H

arris 

V
anparia, 

04/15/1985 
A

m
ishkum

ar B
alubhai 

V
eselov, 

K
irill 

983 

B
ond, D

avid R
yan 

09/05/1979 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
A

ppalachian C
ollege 

O
f P

harm
acy 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
U

niversity O
f R

hode 
Island 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

N
ova S

outheastern 

N
ova S

outheastern 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

8880 O
ld K

ings R
d. S

. 
U

nit 92 

4599 S
heridan S

t 

1815 S
tew

art P
lace 

670 
Landing P

kw
y 

101 H
ialeah 

D
rive 

227 S
w

8T
h S

t 

1745 R
ed C

edar D
rive 

A
pt #12 

12650 5 W
 88 S

t 

2391 W
 68T

h S
t. 

4 S
outh B

revard A
ve 

N
ot P

racticing in F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
2974 A

ventura B
lvd 

10142 W
 Indiantow

n R
d 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32314-6320 

N
orth M

iam
i B

each, F
L 

33180 
Jupiter, F

L 
33478 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

P
S

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

50786 

P
S

 

07/26/2013 

50787 
07/26/2013 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50788 

50789 

12/13/1984 

03/10/1982 

07/26/2013 

07/26/2013 

E
D

U
 Institution 

PS 
50790 

I 
07/26/2013 

08/14/1988 

P
L A

ddress 

P
S

 
50791 

4710 P
alm

 B
each B

lvd 

03/07/1988 

06/23/1990 

P
L Location 

07/26/2013 

07/26/2013 

3838 B
ritton P

laza 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33905 

324 indian T
race R

d 

- 50793 
07/26/2013 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33611 

01/27/1987 

W
eston, F

L 
33326 

121 
D

ekalb A
ve 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

09/20/1975 

50794 

50795 

50796 

50797 

07/26/2013 

07/26/2013 

07/26/2013 

07/26/2013 

12/20/1985 

B
rooklyn, N

Y
 

11201 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32257 

H
ollyw

ood, F
L 33021 

M
elbourne, F

L 
32935 

09/28/1988 

05/03/1987 

05/15/1987 

—
-—

-4 
P

S
 

50799 
07/26/2013 

P
S

 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32250 

U
niversity 

J 
N

ova S
outheastern 

855 E
 8T

h A
ve 

09/20/1985 

50800 
07/26/2013 

04/15/1986 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33010 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33130 

07/26/2013 

04/12/1986 

H
ialeah,F

L 
33010 

- 

08/14/1984 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33907 

M
iam

i, 
F

L 
33186 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33016 

A
rcadia, F

L 
34266 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualiF
y A

ssurance 

M
O

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/ 1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 21 of37 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 

04/20/1986 
U

niversity O
f 

T
ennessee-C

entral 

06/02/1 984 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

12/26/1981 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

10/23/1988 
U

niversity O
f N

ew
 

11/27/1985 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 
01/23/1989 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 

04/21/1987 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

U
niversity O

f C
olorado 

H
ealth S

ciences C
 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

7 S
outh V

alencia D
rive 

D
avie, F

L 
33324 

215 N
e 11T

h S
treet A

pt 
F

L 
34972 

21 

W
elicare H

ealth P
lans, 

Inc 

630 N
 71 T

er 
H

ollyw
ood, 

F
L 

33024 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg....rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

P
S

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

50805 

P
S

 

07/26/2013 
H

ackbarth, S
teven 

A
rthur 

50806 

B
irth D

ate 

07/26/2013 
P

earce P
earson, 

P
am

ela P
eariene 

P
S

 
50807107/26/2013 

T
aylor, D

ahlia O
livia 

P
S

 

P
S

 

E
D

U
 Institution 

50808 

50809 

07/26/2013 
S

leeper, K
ara R

ose 

P
S

 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

07/29/2013 
M

ontilone, R
alph 

D
avid 

50810 

99434 O
verseas H

w
y 

- 
K

ey Largo, F
L 33037 

07/29/2013 
M

andela, N
icketris 

Lekendra S
im

m
ons 

10241 W
 B

row
ard B

lvd 
P

lantation, F
L 33324 

1501 
S

 F
ederal H

ighw
ay 

P
om

pano B
each, F

L 
33062 

45 Lebanon S
t. 

S
anford, M

E
 

04073 

1903 S
r 60 E

ast 

5701 
N

 W
 183R

d S
t 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33015 

p5 

P
S

 

U
niversity 

9675 N
e 41S

t S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33178 

6961 C
ollege C

ourt A
pt 

D
avie, F

L 
33317 

#01-201 
4 

1000 36T
h S

treet Indian 
-- 

V
ero B

each, F
L 

32960 
R

iver M
edical C

enter 

50812 
07/29/2013 

50813 
07129/2013 

-- 

I 

Llam
azares, Laura 

V
aghani, N

ileshkum
ar 

B
atukbhai 

,V
uV

an 

01/21/1988 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

11/06/1983 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

12/09/1983 
tN

oV
a S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

P
S

 
50815 

07/29/2013 
M

cintosh, K
erry-A

nn 
A

ntoinette 
-t 09/20/1 985 

08/02/1 980 

F
lorida A

 &
 

M
 

U
niversity 

Lake E
rie C

oIl. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

7221 N
orm

andy B
lvd 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32205 

5357 E
hrlich 

R
d 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33625 
P

S
 

50816 
07129/2013 

S
anchez, A

nthony 
H

arris 

P
S

 
50817 

07/29/2013 
S

aintil, M
yrlande 

01/13/1986 
M

ercer U
niversity 

110 N
E

 44T
h S

treet 
O

akland P
ark, F

L 
33334 

P
S

 
50818 

07/29/2013 
V

azquez, D
airon 

01/29/1 986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

692W
 29T

h S
t 

L 'iii 
N

. 12T
h S

treet U
nit 

1702 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33012 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33602 
P

S
 

50819 
07/29/2013 

M
oosapanah, M

ielad 
08/13/1987 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50820 

50821 

07/29/2013 
K

han, B
ibi H

aseena 

07/29/2013 
P

atel, K
unal 

06/21/1 984 

0822 
S

chock, B
rittany A

nne 

P
S

 
50823 

07/29/2013 
I S

ilva, P
am

ela E
rica 

04/09/1982 

07/30/1982 



D
ivision 

M
edical Q

ualify A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 22 of37 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantIc 
U

niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
1515:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

1 A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
50824 

P
S

 
50825 

07/29/2013 
S

m
ythe, W

illiam
 

P
athck 

10/02/1982 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
S

w
 M

ain B
lvd 

Lake C
ity, F

L 
32025 

07/29/2013 
11/08/1978 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

, 
F

L 
33765 

P
S

 
50826 

07/30/2013 
S

alinas, G
uillerm

o 
A

braham
 

08/23/1980 
C

reighton U
niversity 

11233 N
w

 1S
t S

t 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 

33172 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50827 

50828 

07/30/2013 
P

redelus, Jude 
09/09/1 987 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
2261 E

dgew
ood A

ve. W
 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32209 

07/30/2013 
W

illcoxon, E
rica 

Leigh 
05/13/1989 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

4301 W
. 7T

h S
t S

lot 119 
Little R

ock, A
R

 
72205 

P
S

 
50829 

07/30/2013 
T

hornton, Jessica 
R

ene 
11/08/1988 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
3505 U

niversity B
lvd W

 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32217 

P
em

broke P
ines, F

L 
33024 

P
S

 
50830 

07/30/2013 
G

alano, A
nabel 

04/03/1 987 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

70 
N

 U
niversity D

r 

P
S

 
50831 

07/30/2013 
N

w
ankw

o, N
neam

aka 
09/21/1986 

N
ova S

outheastern 
13113 S

w
 47T

h S
t 

M
iram

ar, F
L 

33027 

- P
S

 
50832 

P
S

 
50833 

07/30/2013 

07/30/2013 

A
daobi 

T
ran, T

hu H
a T

hi 
09/23/1985 

U
niversity 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
r 

1490 R
ock S

prings R
d 

r 
- 

-- 
- 

W
ilson, R

obert 
A

nthony 
Ii 

09/06/1988 
3775 M

aple G
rove C

t 
P

ort O
range, F

L 
32129 

P
S

 
50834 

07/30/2013 
P

atel, M
ihirkum

ar 
lshvarbhai 

05/22/1 985 
F

oreign S
chools 

9309 S
e M

aricam
p R

d 
O

cala, F
L 

34472 

P
S

 
50835 

07/30/2013 
Y

oung, S
tacy 

11/04/1973 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

U
niversity 

N
ot P

racticing 
In F

lorida 
P

 0 B
ox 6320 

I T
allahassee, F

L 
32314-6320 

P
S

 
07/30/2013 

Z
epf, A

pnI Lorraine 
1 07/11/1989 

Lake 
C

oD
. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 

- 
ye 

r 
F

L 
34637 

P
S

 
50837 

07/30/2013 
B

eaconi, Julianne 
09/1 8/1 988 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
1000 36T

h S
treet 

V
ero B

each, F
L 

32960 

P
S

 
50838 

07/30/2013 
.. 

C
urran, M

atthew
 

V
incent 

10/04/1 985 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 
j 

S
an P

ablo R
oad 

T
 

21200 S
t A

ndrew
s B

lvd 
S

uite 5.6 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32224 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33433 
P

S
 

.-—
-—

 
50839 

07/30/2013 
E

brahim
i, A

li 
05/11/1986 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

P
S

 
50840 

07/30/2013 
H

oag, B
rian D

ouglas 
10/24/1 985 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
31226 C

ove R
d 

- 

T
avares, F

L 
32778 

13 
Jaum

e 
Joy 

08/19/1988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
- 

—
 

11806 S
w

 G
rapefruit C

t 
P

alm
 C

rty 
F

L 
34990 

1 

P
S

 
50842 

07/30/2013 
Jones, loana R

oxana 
10/12/1973 

P
S

 
50843 

07/30/2013 
Lonnem

an, D
avid 

Jam
es Jr 

12/08/1 988 

900 N
e 12T

h A
ve A

pt 507 

7672 N
w

 5T
h S

t #1J 

H
allandale B

each, 
F

L 
33009 

P
lantation, F

L 
33324 



A
ntoine, M

arie 
G

ennvka 

S
am

ford U
niversity 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 

S
am

ford U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

M
assachusetts C

ollege 
O

f P
har &

 A
llied 

H
 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
Lake E

rie C
oIl. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

U
niversity O

f 
T

ennessee-C
entral 

O
ffice 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

A
lbany C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
10:12:30A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
S

 
50848 

P
S

 
50849 

P
S

 

07/30/2013 
W

ells, 
E

m
ily E

ileen 

S
ort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 23 of37 

PL
 Location 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50844 

50845 

- 

07/30/2013 

07/30/2013 

P
atel, Jinal Janak 

08/20/1986 
j N

ova S
outheastern 

400 C
elebration P

lace 
C

elebration, 
F

L 
34747 

Jacksonville, F
L 

36265 
- T

ahiliani, R
ohit A

run 
U

niversity 
09/28/1987 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

6820 S
outhpoint P

arkw
ay 

- 
S

te9 

P
S

 
50847 

07/30/2013 
T

ruong, S
andy T

hi 
I 

03/01/1983 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

600 N
 U

niversity D
r 

P
em

broke P
ines, F

L 
33024 

50850 
07/30/2013 

P
S

 
50851 

07/30/2013 
- A

lderm
an, D

om
inique 

06/18/1989 
Jahnay 

06/18/1987 

07/30/2013 

A
lfonso, N

athalie F
e 

08/18/1988 

07/31/2013 

11/15/1988 

S
antos, M

icaela 
R

achel-Lynette 

5151 
N

9T
h A

ve 

50852 

50853 

50854 

50855 

50856 

50857 

50858 

05/15/1987 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32504 

07/31/2013 

07/31/2013 

07/31/2013 

07/31/2013 

07/31/2013 

07/31/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

V
aughn, H

aley M
arie 

Jodoin, K
athleen P

 

K
anosh, D

eborah 
Jean 

Lin, Y
ang-Y

i 

N
ovoa, T

enim
 S

osa 

P
eyton, N

icole P
atrice 

27440 U
s H

w
y 27 

340 S
w

 110T
h A

ve 

807 E
. S

ilver S
prg 

1632 W
 Jefferson S

t 

1909 E
ast N

ine M
ile R

d 

585 S
chenectady A

ve 

11/29/1985 

04/1 4/1 987 

04/09/1971 

08/30/1986 

07/07/1983 

05/17/1989 

10/02/1988 

05/30/1985 

08/28/1983 

50859 
07/31/2013 

R
oberts, C

ourtney 
E

lise 

50860 

50861 

07/31/2013 

07/31/2013 

O
cala, F

L 
34481 

Q
uincy, 

F
L 32351 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32514 

B
rooklyn, N

Y
 

11203 

C
learw

ater B
each, F

L 
33767 
D

avie, 
F

L 
33324 

P
lantation, F

L 
33324 

T
aU

ahassee, F
L 

32311 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33629 

U
hm

, T
ae H

oon 

C
rane, Joseph H

enry 

P
S

 

660 S
 G

altran B
lvd 

9420 T
angerine P

lace A
pt 

#201 

10065 C
leary B

lvd 

1932 W
indw

ood W
ay 

1313 
S

. D
ale M

abry 

50862 
07/31/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

D
abady, F

abiola 

50863 

50864 

07/31/2013 

07/31/2013 

10/04/1984 

10406 S
easide W

ay 

0865 07/31/2013 
- 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 

E
isenm

an, M
onica 

—
 

V
asallo, Livernay 

S
tone, T

ristin N
em

itz 

08/14/1988 

08/1 8/1 976 

03/1 9/1 988 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33615 

3880 
N

 9T
h A

ve 
P

ensacola, F
L 

32503 

1201 
N

w
 16T

h S
treet 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33125 

686 G
olden B

each D
rive 

G
olden B

each, F
L 

33160 

65 W
inooski F

alls W
ay 

W
inooski, V

T
 

05404 
- 

A
pt# 404 

6000 49T
h S

treet N
orth 

S
t P

etersburg, F
L 

- 33709 

pkg_rpt_licp_dxl5l 5:09/1212013 10:11:37 O
N

D
 



D
ivision ol 

M
edical Q

ualily A
ssuronce 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

a rt R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 24 of37 

50877 
08/02/2013 

P
atel, R

eshm
a 

N
arhari 

E
rdm

an, M
ichael 

Joseph 
A

rcebido, R
ebecca 

T
ullao 

Q
uiroga, Leticia 

W
alker, C

ucnhat 
P

hung 

B
oss, T

chialann G
ood 

B
uchanan, M

elinda 
N

guyen 

T
ysiak, M

arissa F
aye 

B
ui, In 

M
inh 

G
onzaga, Joedell 

M
uon 

C
hapm

an, M
ackenzie 

K
eck 

S
ordo, E

ileen 
M

ercedes 
D

onalies, S
helley 

Lynn 
D

avaw
ala, R

onak 
A

lkesh 

D
oan, A

nh H
oang 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 

A
uburn U

niversity M
ain 

C
am

pus 
U

niversity O
f R

hode 
Island 
S

uny A
t B

uffalo 

Lake E
rie C

oIl. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

M
ercer U

niversity 

B
utler U

niversity 

U
niversity O

f 
O

steopathic M
edicine 

A
nd H

 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

04/20/1 981 
U

niversity O
f Iow

a 

F
lorida A

 &
 

M
 

U
niversity 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

01/16/1 985 
U

niversity O
f R

hode 
Island 

07/05/1985 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rptjicp_dxt5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

P
S

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

50866 
07/31/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50867 

50868 

08/01/2013 

08/01/2013 

D
alton, O

rijane A
lm

a 

W
alsh, M

ark D
oughty 

11/01/1985 

07/27/1981 

08/01/2013 

P
arikh, K

ruti 

50869 

50870 
P

S
 

B
alsara, P

inang G
 

06/18/1985 

08/01/2013 

05/20/1 986 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50871 

50872 

853 H
arbor B

lvd 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

08/14/1983 

D
estin, F

L 43474 

1475 N
w

 12T
h A

ve 

7701 
S

 R
aeford R

d 

01/24/1987 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33136 

317 S
underland W

ay 

04/27/1984 

50874 

50875 

F
ayetteville, N

C
 

28304 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

S
tockbridge, G

A
 

30281 

50876 

3351 S
outh 

P
ine A

ve 

08/02/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

07/07/1984 

1275 U
nion A

ve 

121 
D

ekalb A
venue 

O
cala, 

F
L 

34471 

M
em

phis, T
N

 
38102 

03/20/1984 

09/07/1986 

50878 

- 
50879 

50880 

1000 36T
h S

treet 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

P
S

 
50881 

P
S

 

08/02/2013 

200 S
w

 13T
h S

t 

601 
N

orth 30T
h S

t 

24170 H
w

y 27 

325 N
 A

lafaya T
r 

B
rooklyn, N

Y
 

11201 

V
ero B

each, F
L 

32960 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33130 

O
m

aha, N
E

 
68131 

Lake W
ales, F

L 
33859 

- 

O
rlando, F

L 
32828 

50882 

P
S

 

C
am

pbell, M
isty S

hay 
08/24/1974 

U
niversity O

f G
eorgia 

08/02/2013 

50883 

P
S

 

08/02/2013 

12/1 7/1 973 

03/02/1989 

50884 

N
ortheastern U

niversity 

S
outh U

niversity 

P
S

 

P
S

 

1400 N
w

 12T
h A

venue 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33136 

11/26/1984 

50885 

50886 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

12514 S
ophia M

arie Loop 
O

rlando, F
L 

32828 

T
ouro C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 

01/22/1 971 

1601 H
w

y 40 E
ast 

200 Lothrop S
t 

611 Z
eagler D

rive 

1201 N
w

 16T
h S

treet 

05/14/1984 

10/29/1989 

D
uquesne U

niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

K
ingsland, G

A
 

31548 

P
ittsburgh, 

P
A

 
15213 

P
alatka, F

L 
32177 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33125 

222 5. H
erlong A

venue 

6151 P
alm

 T
race 

Landings D
rive A

pt 206 

R
ock H

ill, S
C

 
29730 

D
avie, F

L 
33314 

12279 Lake U
nderhill 

O
rlando, F

L 
32837 



P
S

 
50887 

P
S

 

08/02/2013 

D
ivision of 

M
edical 

A
ssurance 

I\4 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
10:12:30A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
S

ort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 25 of 37 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

50888 
08/02/2013 

F
ernandez, D

aniel 
Luis 

P
S

 
50889 

V
ilella, A

ntonia 
Leigh-P

ettit 

P
S

 

08/14/1986 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

U
niversity 

08/02/2013 

50890 

H
ardaw

ay, A
im

ee 
N

oelle 
08/02/2013 

07/08/1972 

12/01 /1 986 

H
aslam

, S
pencer 

D
ane 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

09/28/1987 

4700 5 F
lam

ingo R
d 

T
exas T

ech U
niversity 

H
ealth S

ciences 
C

enter O
f P

harm
acy 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

50891 

50892 

50893 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

5000 Lakew
ood R

anch 
B

lvd 

C
ooper C

ity, F
L 

33330 

B
radenton, F

L 
34211 

2340 H
ighw

ay 77 

105 67T
h S

t N
w

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
anam

a C
ity, F

L 
32405 

50894 

50895 

50896 

50897 

50898 

H
oew

t, K
aren Lynn 

H
ood, E

van A
nyo 

lbekw
eh, Q

ueenet 
O

luchi 
Jane, Jack 

K
auffm

an, E
ric D

aniel 

K
uloba, V

alerie 

Lee, Jee 

Lee, Jim
in 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

B
radenton, F

L 
34209 

12/29/1977 

01 /0 1/1 987 

07/1 8/1 990 

12/1 2/1 989 

03/12/1981 

04/16/1988 

02/11/1980 

09/1 9/1 987 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

U
niversity O

f A
rizona 

X
avier U

niversity 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 
U

niversity O
f 

M
issouri-K

ansas C
ity 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

U
niversity 

O
regon S

tate 
U

niversity 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

P
S

 
50899 

P
S

 

08/05/2013 

50900 

M
anuel, M

aria 
F

rancesa 

101 
D

erby W
oods D

rive 

2046 N
e W

aldo R
oad 

S
uite 2250 

12902 M
agnolia D

rive 

11690 S
w

 72N
d S

t 

54 H
ospital D

rive 

9251 U
niversity P

kw
y 

540 A
m

ador Ln. U
nit 5 

1600 S
w

 A
rcher R

oad 

10101 F
orest H

ill B
lvd 

08/05/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

09/18/1984 

50901 

50902 

08/05/2013 

08/05/2013 

M
edina, K

athya M
aria 

04/25/1986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

Lynn H
aven, F

L 
32444 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32609 

T
am

pa, F
L 33612 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33173 

O
sage B

each, M
O

 
65065 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32514 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33401 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32610 

W
ellington, F

L 
33414 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33187 

M
oore, S

tephanie 
A

nn 
M

ulugeta, N
athneal 

G
etachew

 
N

eilen, Jam
es 

A
ndrew

 
P

S
 

50903 
08/05/2013 

P
S

 
50904 

08/05/20 13 
N

guyen, Lily T
hi 

15771 S
w

 152N
d S

t 

04/09/1985 

11/30/1986 

01/31/1985 

03/08/1983 

12/1 5/1 989 

04/23/1986 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

P
S

 
50905 

08/05/2013 

P
S

 
50906 

08/05/2013 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 

O
ji, C

hinelo Y
vette 

O
zdzinski, A

nna 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

H
am

pton U
niversity 

S
chool O

f P
harm

acy 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 

16800 S
W

. 88T
h S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33196 

15601 S
an C

arlos B
lvd 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33902 

1033 N
orthern W

ay 
W

inter S
prings, F

L 
32708 

3913 K
iaw

a D
rive 

O
rlando, F

L 
32837 

2337 S
w

 A
rcher R

d A
pt 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32608 

3013 

550 O
keechobee B

lvd. 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 

1515:09/12/2013 10:11:37 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 26 of 37 

1024 C
orby C

t 

13851 SW
. 

153 A
ve 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33196 

400 C
elebration P

lace 
I C

elebration, F
L 

34747 

pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:09112/2013 10:11:37 
O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
50907 

08/05/2013 
Q

uach, K
im

m
y 

10/08/1987 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

11270 S
w

 47 S
treet 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33165 

P
S

 
50908 

08/05/2013 
R

aym
undo, R

odel 

J 10/31/1985 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
7430 S

outh W
est A

rcher 
G

ainesville, F
L 

32608 

P
S

 
50909 

08/05/2013 
R

ees, W
illiam

 
E

ugene 
11/30/1982 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

105 S
o P

ebble B
each 

B
lvd 

S
un C

ity C
enter, F

L 
33573 

P
S

 
50910 

08/05/2013 
R

odriguez, 
C

M
stianneE

ugen!a 
07/31/1988 

N
ova S

outheastern 
7199 S

w
 117T

h A
ve 

K
endall, F

L 
33183 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50911 

50912 

08/05/2013 
V

illanueva, C
hristina 

05/1 2/1 982 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
390 S

tate R
oad 13 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32259 

08/05/2013 
S

edeno M
artinez, 

A
nabel 

08/14/1983 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

4705 
7T

h S
t A

pt 410 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33126 

p5 
50913 

08/05/2013 
P

atel, D
hruvang B

ipin 
08/03/1990 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
8790W

 M
cnab R

d 
T

am
arac, F

L 
33321 

P
S

 
50914 

08/05/2013 
S

irota, D
aniel Jam

es 
03/22/1 984 

Lake E
rie C

oIl. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

111 
N

orth T
am

iam
i T

rail 
N

okom
is, F

L 34275 

S
arasota, F

L 34237 
1 

P
S

 
50915 

08/05/2013 
N

icole 
08/03/1989 

O
f 

2773 F
ruftville R

oad 

P
S

 
50916 

M
ccue-E

m
ery, D

onna 
Lee 

02/16/1961 
P

harm
. 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

33343 U
s H

w
y 19 N

 
P

alm
 H

arbor, F
L 

34684 
08/05/2013 

P
S

 
50917 

08/05/2013 
K

ovarik, C
harles 

Joseph lii 
12/28/1988 

S
outh U

niversity 
4567 R

iver C
ity D

rive 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32246 

P
S

 
50918 

08/05/2013 
K

osek, K
urt R

obert 
12/01/1988 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 
6627W

. B
oynton B

each 
B

lvd 

1601 
S

. C
ongress A

ve 

B
oynton B

each, F
L 

334371 

B
oynton B

each, F
L 

334261 
P

S
 

50919 
08/05/2013 

K
linger, R

obin N
 

09/09/1 983 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

U
niversity 

P
S

 
50920 

08/05/2013 
Ingargiola, S

ara 
C

hristine 
08/1 8/1 986 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

535 S
outh T

am
ianii T

n 
V

enice, F
L 

34285 

P
S

 
50921 

08/05/2013 
H

am
ilton, A

m
ah 

O
lufum

ilayo 
06/03/1989 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
17369 48T

h C
ourt N

orth 
Loxahatchee, F

L 
33470 

P
S

 
50922 

08/05/2013 
F

onarov, M
ikhail 

P
S

 

P
S

 

09/11/1972 
C

reighton U
niversity 

50923 
08/05/2013 

C
hung, A

shley 
09/1 8/1 987 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 

50924 
08/05/2013 

H
alim

a 
C

hok, S
teven 

A
nthony 

U
niversity 

08/1 0/1 988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 

I 
3 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 

C
haw

han, M
itisha 

K
apadia 

11/1 5/1 987 

600 S
w

 10 S
t 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

H
ailandale B

each, 
F

L 
33009 

T
allahassee, 

F
L 

32317 



D
IvIsion of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 27 of 37 

08/06/2013 
D

ixon, D
aniel R

ustin 

08/06/2013 
G

reenstein, 
S

tephanie A
nn 

08/06/2013 
G

ustafson, A
shley 

B
rett 

08/06/2013 
H

ollist, A
braham

 
O

lanrew
aju 

08/06/2013 
Ludolph, K

ristin Lynn 
07/1 5/1 988 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

20311 G
rande O

ak 
S

hoppes B
lvd 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
50926 

08/05/2013 
G

utierrez, A
riel 

12/06/1 971 
F

oreign S
chools 

8129W
 8T

h A
ve 

H
iaieah, F

L 
33014 

P
S

 
50927 

08/05/2013 
B

ullard, 
G

ay 
04/08/1989 

S
outh 

P
S

 
50928 

08/05/2013 
C

artw
right, E

lizabeth 
Joanna 

09/1 2/1 973 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
1245 

H
ercules A

ve 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33765 

P
S

 
50929 

08/05/2013 
E

lizabeth 
09/23/1984 

2875 U
niversity P

kw
y 

S
arasota, 

F
L 

34243 
P

S
 

50930 
08/05/2013 

W
hipkey, H

eidi 
E

lizabeth 
07/01/1 986 

Lake E
rie C

ofi. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50931 

50932 

50933 

08/05/2013 
T

ate, C
helsey H

unter 
09/21/1 979 

U
niversity O

f 
T

ennessee-C
entral 

O
ffice 

N
ot P

racticing In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32314-6320 

08/05/2013 

08/05/2013 

S
tephens, C

linton 
Lam

ar 
S

hah, K
ushal 

07/29/1986 
S

am
ford U

niversity 
398 A

labam
a 

S
t 

C
restview

, F
L 

32536 

09/22/1 989 
M

assachusetts C
ollege 

905 C
ape C

oral P
arkw

ay 
C

ape C
oral, 

F
L 

33904 
O

f P
har &

 A
llied H

 

P
hiladelphia C

ollege 
23W

. Industrial B
lvd 

P
aoli, P

A
 

19301 
O

f P
harm

acy A
nd S

ci 
N

ova S
outheastern 

1005 S
. F

ederal H
w

y 
D

eerfield B
each, 

F
L 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

2725 F
lorida R

d 
I A

rcadia, F
L 

34266 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 

P
S

 
I 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50934 
08/06/2013 

50935 
08/06/2013 

50936 
08/06/2013 

N
guyen, T

uynh V
an 

S
chm

ahl, B
rian 

09/22/1 989 

10/22/1 979 

10/02/1 986 
B

ader, T
hom

as K
arl 

P
S

 
50937 

08/06/2013 
C

astano, M
arcela 

09/25/1 986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

14740 M
ustang T

rail 
S

outhw
est R

anches, F
L 

33330 

P
S

 
50938 

08/06/2013 
C

haudhari, H
ell L 

03/22/1 986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
 rilversity 

5161 C
ounselor D

r #207 
Z

ephyrhills, F
L 

33541 

P
S

 
50939 

08106/2013 
C

hristofferson, S
cott 

D
om

inic 
12/01/1 977 

D
rake U

niversity 
4420 Lake B

oone T
rail 

R
aleigh, N

C
 

27607 

P
S

 
50940 

P
S

 
50941 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50942 

50943 

P
S

 
50944 

08/19/1988 
S

outh U
niversity 

10/27/1987 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

03/30/1986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

03/27/1 983 
H

ow
ard U

niversity 

1422 C
oxstili R

d 

10181 W
 B

row
ard 

B
lvd 

11631 A
shridge P

lace 

2O
S

w
 12T

h A
ve 

A
del, G

A
 

31620 

P
lantation, F

L 33324 

O
rlando, F

L 
32824 

D
eerfield B

each, F
L 

33442 

E
stero, F

L 33928 



of 
M

edical Q
uality A

ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 2
8
 o
f
3
7
 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 

801 S
outh O

live A
ve U

nit 
#235 

5701 
N

w
 183R

d S
t 

60 S
 H

oliday D
r 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33401 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33015 

M
iram

ar B
each, F

L 
32550 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic. p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
50945 

08/06/2013 
Lyutov, Y

evgeniy 
N

ikolayevich 
05/22/1987 

Lake E
rie C

olt. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

9252 S
an Jose B

lvd U
nit 

101 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32257 

P
S

 
1 

50946 
08/06/2013 

01/15/1989 
P

afrn B
each 

U
niversity 

2200 P
alm

 B
each Lakes 

B
lvd 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33409 
- 

T
upelo, M

S
 

38801 
P

S
 

P
S

 

50947 

50948 

08/06/2013 
R

iley, C
arm

en 
H

endrix 
11/15/1981 

U
niversity O

f 
M

ississippi M
ain 

C
am

pus 

144 S
. T

hom
as S

t S
uite 

101-1 

08/06/2013 
R

ush, B
rie T

aylor 
10/14/1 988 

S
outh U

niversity 
3770 N

 G
oldenrod R

d 
W

inter P
ark, F

L 
32792 

P
S

 
50949 

08/06/2013 
S

arsah, S
akyi K

obina 
03/02/1971 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
20070 C

ortez B
lvd 

B
rooksville, F

L 
34601 

P
S

 
50950 

08/06/2013 
S

cagnegatti, M
elissa 

E
lyse 

03/06/1 988 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

12721 T
rotter B

lvd 

1415 T
ulane A

ve 

D
avie, F

L 
33330 

N
ew

 O
rleans, LA

 
70112 

P
S

 
50951 

08/06/2013 
S

ouders,G
ary D

ee 
05/18/1950 

iT
 

P
S

 
50952 

J 08/06/2013 
P

S
 

50953 
08/06/2013 

4 
P

S
 

50954 
08/06/2013 

P
S

 
50955 

08/07/2013 

C
ollazo, C

arlos 
02/08/1988 

F
reed, N

elida 
Jo1/os,i 987 

P
endleton 

I 

M
artin, A

nalia 

S
unyA

t B
uffalo 

1102 N
orth 15T

h S
treet 

Im
m

okalee, F
L 

34142 
M

assachusetts C
ollege 

O
f P

har &
 A

llied H
 

N
ova S

outheastern 

8345 S
w

 107T
h A

ve A
pt H

 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33173 

14501 M
iram

ar P
kw

y 
M

iram
ar, F

L 
33027 

A
yala, 

K
eila llushka 

01/1 2/1 985 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

156 A
lt S

abaneras 
S

abana G
rande, P

R
 

06 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 
33707 

P
S

 
50956 

08/07/2013 
B

row
n, S

tephanie 
N

icole 
02/1 6/1 987 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

-. 

6820 G
ulfport B

lvd S
 

P
S

 
50957 

08/07/2013 
F

ike, Y
esenia T

oro 
03/11/1987 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
1800 

N
. N

ob H
ill R

d 
P

lantation, F
L 33322 

P
S

 
50958 

08/07/2013 
N

elson, Joelle E
lyse 

07/09/1987 
M

idw
estern S

tate 
U

niversity 
1600 U

f H
ealth S

hands 
S

w
 A

rcher R
d 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32608 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50959 

50960 

08/07/2013 

08/07/2013 

Lopez, Jacquelyn 
Lauren 
M

unn, Jonathan 
E

dw
ard 

12/15/1984 

01/14/1 988 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
Lake E

rie C
olt. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

10340 N
w

 11T
h S

treet 

4478 T
am

iam
i T

rail 

P
lantation, F

L 33322 
- 

P
S

 
50961 

08/07/2013 
P

eterson, S
unshine 

G
abrielle A

m
orette 

P
S

 
50962 

08/07/2013 
W

hite, John P
 

09/08/1988 

0 7/04/1 988 

P
S

 
50963 

08/07/2013 
C

row
ell, K

im
berly A

nn 
12/29/1986 



E
D

U
 P

rovider 

N
ova S

outheastern 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

S
am

ford U
niversity 

P
hiladelphia C

ollege 
O

f P
harm

acy A
nd S

ci 

C
reighton U

niversity 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 

A
lbany C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 
W

est V
irginia 

U
nw

ersity 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
S

outh C
arolina C

ollege 
O

f P
harm

acy 
M

assachusetts C
ollege 

O
f P

har &
 A

llied H
 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

P
L A

ddress 

586 R
egal Lady C

ourt 

650 N
. C

ongress A
venue 

4215 S
w

 9T
h S

treet 

15880 S
an C

arios B
lvd Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 2
9
 o
f
3
7
 

P
L
 L
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 

L
a
w
r
e
n
c
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 G

A
 

30044 

B
oynton B

each, F
L 

33426 

V
era B

each, F
L 

32968 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33908 

O
rlando, 

F
L 32825 

V
alrico, F

L 
33596 

A
itam

onte S
prings, F

L 
32701 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32314-6320 

F
erguson, M

O
 63136 

O
rlando, F

L 
32809 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33901 

P
arkersburg, W

V
 

26104 

T
yrone, G

A
 

30290 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33165 

O
coee, F

L 
34761 

C
oconut C

reek, F
L 

33073 

O
rlando, F

L 
32802 

N
ew

 P
ort R

ichey, 
F

L 
34655 

S
arasota, F

L 34234 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
1515:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
10:12:30A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

P
S

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

50964 

P
S

 

08/07/2013 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

50965 

P
atel, D

arshan 
H

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

08/09/2013 

50966 

50967 
08/09/2013 

B
ernstein, A

licia K
ay 

12/28/1985 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

08/09/2013 

P
atel, R

aj M
ahendra 

02/06/1987 

E
D

U
 Institution 

H
illiard, S

tacey N
oel 

50968 

11/06/1982 

09/29/1987 

08/12/2013 
P

S
 

P
S

 

P
S

 

W
inegar, Joshua 

R
obert 

50969 

50970 

0 1/26/1 987 

08/12/2013 

08/12/2013 

K
um

ar, N
ipum

 N
itin 

M
iazga, F

rank John 

50971 

12/09/1987 

11/10/1967 

08/12/2013 
10/20/1981 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

50972 

50973 

50974 

50975 

50976 

50977 

8174 E
ider D

r 

1315 M
onte Lake D

rive 

648 R
idgew

ood S
treet 

N
ot P

racticing In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
08/12/2013 

08/12/2013 

08/12/2013 

08/12/2013 

08/12/2013 

08/12/2013 

A
llison, H

annah 
M

egan 
B

uchanan, 
B

ridget 
M

aria 

C
opeland, Lindsey 

M
arie 

F
iorenza, M

allory A
nn 

H
arkness, R

yan C
riag 

M
arhnez,Leanne 

M
arie 

10/1 9/1 965 

12/1 8/1 988 

09/20/1987 

09/13/1989 

10/05/1976 

09/13/1987 

P
S

 
50978 

P
S

 

08/12/2013 

50979 

O
w

ens, T
am

isha 
R

achelle 

P
S

 

08/12/2013 

50980 

04/1 5/1 980 

P
S

 

P
achelli, Lisa M

arie 

08/12/2013 

10805 O
ld H

alls F
erry R

d. 

7003 P
residents D

rive 
S

uite 250 

2776 C
leveland A

ve 

221 V
alley M

ills D
r. 

138 K
esw

ick M
anor D

rive 

3014 S
w

 99 C
t 

1904 Lochshyre Loop 

50981 

R
iley, S

tephanie 
Janae 

10/02/1 986 

08/13/2013 

P
S

 
50982 

05/20/1987 

08/13/2013 

R
iyad, P

aul 

V
elazquez G

arcia, 
P

edro P
ascual 

06/30/1989 

05/06/1975 

6570 N
orth S

tate R
oad 7 

5201 R
aym

ond S
treet 

5432 Little R
d 

1904 N
orth A

llendale A
ve 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

7/ 1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Processed: 9

/
1
2
/
2
0
1
3
 
1
0
:
1
2
:
3
0
A
M
 

P
a
g
e
 3
0
 o
f
 3
7
 

R
a
n
k
 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
50983 

08/13/2013 
.1. 

V
ictoria, V

ivian 
12/27/1983 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
11499 S

w
 40T

h S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33165 

P
S

 
50984 

08/13/2013 
W

oo, S
ung K

yun 
11/29/1983 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

9022 N
w

 40T
h S

t 
C

oral S
prings, F

L 
33065 

P
S

 
50985 

08/13/2013 
Z

agvazdin, A
lexander 

05/28/1987 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

2104W
. O

akland P
ark 

O
akland P

ark, F
L 

33311 

P
S

 
50986 

08/13/2013 
A

num
udu, E

zinne 

08/13/2013 
C

hang, V
oungil 

01/31/1 986 

02/07/1973 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 

7305 N
 M

ilitary T
rail 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

I 33410 
J 

753 Lake W
ellington D

r 
W

ellington, F
L 

33414 
P

S
 

50987 

P
S

 
50988 

08/13/2013 
G

lenn, S
tephanie 

06/01/1 983 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

7790 B
landing B

lvd 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32244 

N
icole 

U
niversity 

50989 
08/13/2013 

S
hirin 

07/08/1988 
N

ova S
outheastern 

—
 

- 
- 

S
an 

C
ircle 

P
alm

 B
each G

ardens, F
L 

U
niversity 

33410 
50990 - 

08/13/2013 
T

hnh, 
T
r
a
n
g
 D

O
an 

12/15/1985 
O

f M
a
r
y
l
a
n
d
 

1
 6
0
0
 S
w
 A
r
c
h
e
r
 
R
d
 

I
 iii 

3
2
6
0
8
 

- 
50991 

08/13/2013 
W

atson, D
anielle 

08/31/1989 
M

assachusetts 1 
7229W

. O
akland P

ark 
Lauderdale, F

L 
33313 

Lynn 
L 

P
har &

 A
llied H

 

50992 
08/13/2013 

A
dunlin, E

lisabeth A
 

05/17/1954 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

1 
925 E

 M
agnolia D

r A
pt 051 T

allahassee, F
L 

32301 
- 

50993 
08/13/2013 

A
hm

ad, S
aba 

03/30/1986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

114631 S
.W

. 
110T

h 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33186 

U
niversity 

T
errace 

50994 
B

eeloo, M
ichelle 

06/01/1968 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
710 150T

h A
ve 

M
adeira B

each, F
L 

33708 
M

arie 

50995 
08/13/2013 

C
arragher, T

ania 
02/13/1984 

1 Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

15222 M
unicipal D

rive 
M

adeira B
each, F

L 
33708 

M
aria 

O
steo M

ed. S
oft O

f 
- 

50996 
J 08/13/2013 

C
hantara, A

liya A
pril 

04/14/1 986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

3858 V
illa R

ose Ln 
O

rlando, 
F

L 
32808 

50997 
08/13/2013 

D
oshi, S

him
oli 

1 09/24/1986 
rN

ova S
outheastern 

19204 Inlet C
ove C

t 
Lutz, F

L 
33558 

N
itinkum

ar 
I U

niversity 

50998 
08/13/2013 

F
rancisco, Jon C

arlo 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
701 6T

h S
t. S

 
S

aint P
etersburg, 

F
L 

C
 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
33701 

P
harm

. 

P
S

 

P
S

 
- 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 
50999 

08/13/2013 
G

arcia, E
lyana Y

vette 
01/06/1987 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

2102 W
. B

aker S
treet 

P
lant C

ity, F
L 33563 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51000 
08/13/2013 

G
om

ez, M
elenie A

nne 

- 
Jellots, N

icholas 
M

urray 

12/24/1982 

12/14/1987 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 

15421 S
w

 81 C
ircle Lane 

-- 
15103 S

earobbin D
rive 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33193 
.. 

B
radenton, F

L 
34202 

51001 
08/13/2013 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l5:09!12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 



C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/ 1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

S
outh U

niversity 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

U
niversity O

f iow
a 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

02/19/1986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

D
rake U

niversity 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 
Lake E

rie C
oIl. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 

C
vs P

harm
acy 

S
avannah, G

A
 

31419 

716 N
. U

s H
ighw

ay 441 
T

he V
illages, F

L 
32159 

981090 N
ebraska M

edical 
O

m
aha, N

E
 

68198 
C

enter 
4849 C

oconut C
reek P

kw
y 

C
oconut C

reek, F
L 

33063 

828 S
outhern B

lvd 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33405 

22829 S
r 54 

Land 0 Lakes, F
L 

34637 

11204W
. 

S
r 84 

D
avie, F

L 
33324 

4110 G
eorge R

d S
uite 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33634 
300 

317 N
w

 43R
d S

treet A
pt 2 

O
akland P

ark, F
L 

33309 

860 A
lA

 N
orth 

P
onte V

edra B
each, F

L 
32082 

pkg_rpt_iic.p_dxi5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 
O

N
D

 

D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal License D
ate 

Page 31 of37 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

P
S

 
51002 

08/13/2013 
M

oore, W
hitney 

M
ichelle 

10/17/1988 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

I 

15502 S
toneybrook W

est 
P

kw
yS

uite 100 
W

inter G
arden, 

F
L 

34787 

P
5 

51003 
08/13/2013 

O
'C

onnor, K
risten 

M
arie 

06/21/1 978 
M

assachusetts 
O

f P
har &

 A
llied H

 
91 

S
helds R

d. 
M

ashpee, M
A

 02649 

P
S

 
51004 

08/13/2013 
S

equete, A
lyssa 

T
heresa 

01/06/1989 
D

uquesne U
niversity 

805 C
ape C

oral P
arkw

ay 
C

ape C
oral, F

L 
33904 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51005 

51006 

08/13/2013 

08/13/2013 

. 

V
eksler, Irw

in Y
 

- 
A

tanasow
, M

artin 
M

anuel 

12/23/1981 
R

utgers T
he S

tate 
2932 V

V
 5T

h S
t B

ldg 6B
 

A
pt#16G

 
101 

N
 C

attlem
en R

oad 

B
rooklyn, N

Y
 

11224 

S
arasota, F

L 
34243 

05/08/1988 
Lake E

rie C
oIl. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 
P

S
 

51007 
08/13/2013 

P
S

 
51008 

08/13/2013 

B
allard, 

B
rendan 

G
ene 

P
otter, Jonathan M

ark 

08/29/1981 

07/29/1983 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

5701 22N
d A

ve S
. 

G
ulfport, F

L 
33707 

O
steo M

ed. 
S

ch. O
f 

- 
N

ova S
outheastern 

5525 S
w

 118T
h A

ve 
C

ooper C
ity, F

L 
33330 

U
niversity 

E
dw

ards, D
avid K

yle 

M
eeks, M

egan Irene 

05/18/1987 

05107/1989 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51009 

51010 

51011 

51012 

51013 

51014 

51015 

51016 

08/13/2013 
08/13/2013 

08/14/2013 

08/14/2013 

08/14/2013 

08/14/2013 

08/14/2013 

08/14/2013 

Johnson, B
randi N

oel 

A
ndrew

s, K
im

berly 
M

arie 

A
rp, C

hristopher A
llan 

B
erger, Jeff S

cott 

C
hen, Y

ancy 

C
ohen, M

atthew
 

B
radley 

341 S
addle B

rook R
oad 

1875 C
ap C

ir N
 E

 

12/25/1 985 

04/18/1985 

08/23/1985 

02/14/1986 

01/05/1985 

04/15/1987 

N
icholls, G

A
 

31554 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32308 

P
S

 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51017 

51018 

51019 

C
osta, C

rystal 
08/14/2013 

08/14/2013 

08/14/2013 

C
yriac, R

oyce Jose 

D
esir, Judelyne 

10/22/1 988 

08/30/1982 

P
S

 
51020 

08/14/2013 
E

ng, Lisa A
nn 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 

04/16/1986 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/ 1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 32 of37 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

P
S

 
I 

51038 
08/15/2013 

Licensee N
am

e 

N
esbitt, M

atthew
 lan 

04/29/1988 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 

6801 
N

w
 24 T

errace 
33309 P

L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of N

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxI5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

P
S

 
51021 

08/14/2013 
E

xposito, A
ileen 

C
aridad 

04/29/1985 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

3100 S
w

 62 A
venue 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33155 

P
S

 
51022 

08/15/2013 
R

ankins, B
arbara 

05/09/1 987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
125 E

. 
M

ain S
t 

A
popka, 

F
L 

32703 

P
S

 
51024 

08/15/2013 
D

enice 
Y

oung, K
endra 

M
indell 

02/27/1986 
T

ennessee-C
entral 

O
ffice 

3515 P
ark A

venue 
T

N
 38111 

08/15/2013 
R

occo, Lauren M
arie 

03/17/1987 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

2757 N
 E

 29T
h C

t 
F

ort Lauderdale, 
F

L 
33306 

P
S

 
51025 

08/15/2013 
P

ierre, S
hinelle T

 

Lahr, B
radley S

hane 

F
ernandez, M

erlyn 

01/24/1 986 

09/16/1988 

02/05/1 977 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

N
ova S

outheastern 

I 

10000 B
ay P

ines B
lvd 

210 3R
d S

t W
 A

pt 7104 

4240W
 10 C

t 

B
radenton, F

L 
34205 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33012 

P
S

 
51026 

P
S

 
51027 

08/15/2013 

08/15/2013 
V

eronica 
U

niversity 

P
S

 
51028 

08/15/2013 
E

ason, Jonathan 
R

yn 
08/09/1987 

N
ova S

outheastern 

09/28/1984 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 

8211 
F

laIl Lane 
S

aint A
ugustine, F

L 
32092 

210 3R
d S

t W
 A

pt 7104 
IB

radenton, F
L 

34205 
I 

P
S

 
51029 

08/15/2013 
A

rvay, B
randie Lee 

P
S

 
51030 

P
S

 
51031 

08/15/2013 

08/15/2013 

Y
oung, John 

R
aym

ond 

W
right, R

hondalyn 
C

utie 

01/20/1983 

--- 
11/24/1988 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 

13130 N
 D

ale M
abry H

w
y 

1200 F
loral S

prings B
lvd 

A
pt #3-102 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33618 

P
ort O

range, F
L 

32129 

P
5 

51032 
08/15/2013 

W
illiam

son, C
helsea 

N
icole 

10/31/1 986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

I 

U
niversity 

5505 N
w

 S
t. 

Jam
es D

r 
P

ort S
aint Lucie, 

F
L 

34983 
P

S
 

51033 
08/15/2013 

T
aylor, C

atherine 
11/24/1983 

N
ova S

outheastern 
1633 V

illage C
enter D

r. 
Lakeland, F

L 
33803 

P
S

 
51034 

08/15/2013 
R

enard, N
aderge 

05/1 7/1 988 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

600 N
e 178T

h S
treet 

N
orth M

iam
i B

each, F
L 

33162 
P

S
 

51035 
08/15/2013 

P
hani, T

am
m

y T
hu 

07/26/1 986 
T

ouro C
ollege O

f 
P

harm
acy 

1200 7T
h A

ve N
 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33705 
6001 T

oscana D
rive #938 

D
avie, F

L 
33314 

P
S

 
51036 

08/15/2013 
N

guyen, V
an H

uynh 
11/24/1986 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
10/29/1984 

4050 T
all T

ree 
F

L 
32810 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/ 1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 33 of37 

B
irth D

ate 

H
udson, A

lbreka 
07/06/1 981 

S
herrie 

O
dongo, D

aniel 
03/12/1986 

M
iguya 

P
erez, A

relys 

S
w

an, K
elly C

iare 

T
ran, H

ieu T
rung 

01/06/1 986 

V
ilialba, D

iego A
ndres 

02/06/1987 

03/1 5/1 983 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
S

outh C
arolina C

ollege 
O

f P
harm

acy 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

P
S

 
51039 

08/15/2013 
N

guyen, A
m

i T
hanh 

K
im

 
10/25/1986 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
6001 T

oscana D
rive #938 

D
avie, F

L 
33314 

P
S

 
j 

P
S

 

51040 

51041 

08/15/2013 
M

iller, B
ella 

02/1 5/1 974 
Long Island U

niversity 
B

rooklyn C
am

pus 
8610 B

ay P
arkw

ay 
B

rooklyn, N
Y

 
11214 

08/15/2013 
M

ains, K
yle R

obert 
11/22/1985 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 
800 M

eadow
s 

R
d 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33486 

P
S

 
51042 

08/15/2013 
H

aque, A
hsanul 

07/28/1962 
U

niversity O
f G

eorgia 
F

loater P
harm

acist 
F

redericksburg, V
A

 
22407 

P
S

 
51043 

08/15/2013 
K

andepi, S
irisha 

10/20/1 980 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

5817 E
agle C

ay Lane 
C

oconut C
reek, F

L 
33073 

{ 

12633 G
ettysburg C

ircle 
O

rlando, F
L 

32837 

2001 W
. 68T

h S
treet 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33016 

P
S

 
51044 

P
S

 
51045 

51046 

P
S

 
51047 

P
S

 
51048 

08/15/2013 
G

andhi, Jasrieet 
11/21/1985 

12/12/1976 

W
ashington S

tate 

08/15/2013 
H

acker-F
iney, N

eisha 
M

elanie 
A

lbany C
ollege O

f 
P

harm
acy 

08/15/2013 
W

ysock 
K

atie E
D

en 
05/02/1987 

U
niversrtyO

f F
lorida 

824 E
llw

ood A
ve 

O
rlando 

F
L 

32804 

08/16/2013 

08/19/2013 

T
haker, P

riya 

B
arsoum

, S
tephanie 

N
ichole 

06/20/1 985 

10/18/1983 

A
uburn U

niversity M
ain 

C
am

pus 
- 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 

17103 N
 B

ay R
oad 

S
unny Isles B

each, F
L 

t33160 
- 

9850 Z
enith M

eridian 
E

nglew
ood, C

O
 

80112 
D

rive #8-207 

3527 N
e 168T

h S
t A

pt 206 
N

orth M
iam

i B
each, F

L 
33160 

P
S

 
51049 

08/19/2013 
D

uran, D
iana 

C
arolina 

12/06/1 986 
P

alm
 B

each A
tlantic 

U
niversity 

P
S

 
51050 

08/19/2013 

P
S

 
51051 

08/19/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51052 
08/19/2013 

51053 
08/19/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51054 
08/19/2013 

10/30/1 986 

04/19/1987 

B
ox 21183 

6651 
O

ld W
inter G

arden 
R

d 

2660 S
w

 156 
P

1 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32316 

O
rlando, F

L 
32835 

P
S

 
51056 

08/19/2013 
M

ann, M
ark 

C
hristopher 

770 N
e 98 S

treet 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33185 

13073 S
 W

 28T
h S

treet 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 

S
m

oak, M
egan M

arie 
04/23/1987 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

R
ichardson 

70563 D
urk B

lvd 

M
iam

i S
hores, F

L 
33138 

M
iram

ar, F
L 

33027 

B
hagw

andeen, 
10/12/1986 

S
hivanne 

S
em

inole, F
L 

33776 

9150 K
ings C

rossing R
d 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33912 

10899 B
aym

eadow
s R

d 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32256 

7313 S
w

 3R
d C

t 
N

orth Lauderdale, F
L 

33068 

pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualily A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 34 of37 

C
astro, E

dw
ard 

04/26/1 988 
K

enneth 
O

kobi, N
w

am
aka 

07/29/1 989 
C

hiagozie 

B
eltran, E

lizabeth 
04/19/1983 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

R
utgers T

he S
tate 

U
niversity C

entral O
ff 

A
uburn U

niversity M
ain 

C
am

pus 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5 15:09/12/2013 10:11:37 O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

IJ P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

P
S

 
51059 

08/19/2013 
D

em
psey, S

ara 
K

athiene 
06/16/1 986 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

20741 B
ruce B

 D
ow

ns 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33647 

P
S

 
51060 

08/19/2013 
D

ow
ning, Jack R

eed 
09/05/1968 

S
am

ford U
niversity 

2824 S
cottsville 

R
d 

B
ow

ling G
reen, K

Y
 

42104 
P

S
 

51061 
08/19/2013 

E
lko, K

ayla M
arie 

03/12/1 989 
M

assachusetts C
ollege 

O
f P

har &
 A

llied 
H

 
2409 S

anta B
arbara B

lvd 
C

ape C
oral, F

L 
33914 

P
S

 
51062 

08/19/2013 
G

oree, Justin R
obert 

07/07/1 985 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
1545 R

ock S
prings R

d 
A

popka, F
L 

32712 
P

S
 

51063 
08/19/2013 

K
elly, K

athleen 
Lidiette 

02/23/1978 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

13923 S
w

 153R
d T

errace 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33177 

P
S

 
51064 

08/19/2013 
M

ackie, A
nthony 

D
ew

ayne 
04/05/1988 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
2221 

S
. S

herm
an C

irc. 
A

pt E
-410 

M
iram

ar, F
L 

33025 

P
S

 
51065 

08/19/2013 
W

ilder, Justin C
ole 

05/05/1987 
A

ppalachian C
ollege 

O
f P

harm
acy 

1 M
edical P

ark B
oulevard 

B
ristol, T

N
 

37620 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51066 

51067 

08/19/2013 
G

oiding, M
ichael 

M
ark 

R
odriguez, M

itcheile 
lndhira 

04/1 7/1 985 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 

2310 P
ine R

idge R
d. 

5515 P
each S

treet 

N
aples, F

L 
34109 

08/19/2013 
08/21/1986 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

-- 
- 

E
rie, 

P
A

 
16509 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51068 
08/21/2013 

Lugo, E
ileen Z

oe 
12/01 /1 987 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
2202 Jam

es L R
edm

an 
P

lant C
ity, F

L 
33563 

P
kw

y 

350 S
outh B

roadw
ay 

T
arrytow

n, N
Y

 
10591 

-—
-- 

7000 N
w

 17T
h S

t #405 
P

lantation, F
L 

33313 

51069 
08/21/2013 

B
uabeng, D

onae 
09/25/1 983 

Long Island U
niversity 

P
S

 
51070 

08/21/2013 
H

anion, Laura 
E

lizabeth 
11/24/1986 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 

P
S

 
51071 

08/21/2013 
B

erardelli, E
m

iiia 
01/11/1987 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

 harm
. 

3015 S
W

 P
ine Island R

d 
C

ape C
oral, F

L 
33991 

P
S

 
51072 

08/21/2013 
E

fkovics, B
randee 

M
arie 

09/24/1 981 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 

3275 G
arden S

t 
T

itusvilie, F
L 

32796 

P
S

 
51073 

- 

08/21/2013 
M

oynihan, A
nnie G

ay 
10/04/1982 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

197 B
oston T

urnpike R
te. 

S
hrew

sbury, M
A

 
01545 

P
S

 
51074 

08/22/2013 

P
S

 
51b75 

1 o8m
o3 

P
S

 
51076 

08/22/2013 

819 M
aple T

ree Lane 

1489 S
outh O

range 
B

lossom
 T

rail 

O
rlando, F

L 
32828 

1566 C
rossbeam

 D
r 

A
popka, F

L 32703 

C
asselberry, F

L 
32707 





D
ivision ol 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 36 of37 

U
niversity O

f M
aryland 

S
chool O

f P
harm

acy 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 

N
ot P

racticing in F
lorida 

P
0 B

ox 6320 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32314-6320 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxI5l 5:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
P

L Location 

P
S

 
51095 

08/26/2013 
M

ansour, E
lizabeth 

06/04/1990 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

1995 S
r 19 N

orth 

3601 
B

ee R
idge R

d 

E
ustis, F

L 
32726 

S
arasota, F

L 
34233 

P
S

 
51096 

08/27/2013 
S

ypoit, E
rin C

hristine 
03/11/1989 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

P
S

 
51097 

08/27/2013 
B

essier, S
teven 

Joseph 
11/24/1987 

P
alm

 B
each A

tlantic 
U

niversity 

. 

N
ot P

racticing In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
T

allahassee, F
L 

3231 4-6320 
P

S
 

51098 
08/27/2013 

C
abrera, Luliesky 

03/27/1986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

8109 S
w

 158T
h A

ve 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 

33193 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51099 
08/27/2013 

C
antuaiia, Leia 

D
agm

ar 

51100 
08/27/2013 

C
ox, P

rem
 Lidsey 

01 /09/1 974 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

6570 A
nchor Loop #207 

. 
5804 B

ee R
idge R

d. 

- 

B
radenton, F

L 
34212 

S
arasota, 

F
L 

34233 
06/04/1983 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

P
S

 

P
S

 
51102 

08/27/2013 

08/27/2013 

T
aylor 

04/08/1 985 
Lake 

O
f 

P
harm

. 
D

raucker, T
anya 

Lynn 
09/06/1987 

S
t Louis C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 
449W

 23R
d S

treet 
P

anam
a C

ity, F
L 

32405 

P
S

 
51103 

P
S

 
51104 

51105 

08/27/2013 
F

rornan, H
ilary E

llen 

... 
- 

08/2712013 
G

rubbs, W
illa T

am
ika 

-..- 
08/27/2013 

Luu, H
ongY

en 

06/24/1988 
P

urdue U
niversity M

ain 
14335 G

natcatcher 
Lakew

ood R
anch, 

F
L 

7479 Lake W
orth R

oad 
' Lake W

orth, F
L 

33467 
06/19/1976 

N
ova S

outheastern 

11/15/1987 
-.-. 

LakeE
rieC

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

.-..—
 

7001 
N

. C
oolidgeA

ve 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33614 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51106 
08/27/2013 

M
acen, C

hristopher 
P

eter 
08/18/1986 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
8520 S

w
27 P

lace 
D

avie, 
F

L 33328 

51107 
08/27/2013 

W
ebster, M

atthew
 

T
hom

as 
03/02/1989 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

h arm
. 

6003 14T
h S

t W
 

B
radenton, F

L 
34207 

P
S

 
51108 

08/27/2013 
A

gaj, S
adina 

06/13/1982 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
11665 F

ox C
reek D

r 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33635 

P
S

 
51109 

08/28/2013 
H

eath, E
m

ily 
E

lizabeth 
03/23/1989 

N
ortheastern U

niversity 

09/27/1988 
A

lbany C
ollege O

f 
P

harm
acy 

S
arasota M

em
orial 

H
ospiial 

S
arasota, F

L 
34239 

P
S

 
51110 

08/28/2013 
C

hung, Jiyang 
12 C

alifornia A
venue A

pt 
B

307 
A

lbany, N
Y

 
12205 

P
S

 
51111 

08/28/2013 
A

scanio, A
lm

a 
05/22/1980 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
14953 S

w
 32 T

err 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33185 

P
S

 
51112 

08/28/2013 
F

urgiueie, P
eter 

Joseph 
05/06/1 983 



D
ivision of 

M
edical 

M
Q

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

10:12:30A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 37 of37 

T
otal R

ecords: 
737 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:09/12/2013 10:11:37 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
51116 

08/28/2013 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51117 

P
S

 
51113 

08/28/2013 

08/28/2013 

Lopez, G
iovanni 

M
achado-G

onzalez, 
M

ae 

07/31/1977 

11/25/1982 

N
ova S

outheastern 
11375 S

w
 57T

h T
errace 

395 C
ypress P

kw
y 

M
iam

i, F
L 33173 

P
S

 
51114 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34759 

P
S

 
51115 

08/28/2013 
R

anieshw
ar, S

hivani 
04/08/1983 

S
t Johns C

ollege M
ain 

C
am

pus 
163-30 C

ross B
ay 

B
oulevard 

H
ow

ard B
each, N

Y
 

11414 

P
ham

, C
hristine 

D
iern-C

hau 

08/28/2013 

51118 
08/30/2013 

01 /06/1 984 

S
karia, Jason P

hilip 

P
acific U

niversity O
f 

O
regon 

01/25/1988 

M
arkow

itz, John S
eth 

02/23/1 961 

P
hiladelphia C

ollege 
O

f P
harm

acy A
nd S

ci 

P
s 

51119 
08/30/2013 

G
onzalez, C

hristina 
03/03/1979 

M
ercer U

niversity 
M

arie 

U
niversity O

f 
T

ennessee-C
entral 

O
ffice 

2627 T
rim

ble R
d 

710 B
urm

ont R
d 

S
anJose,C

A
 95132 

D
rexel H

ill, P
A

 
19026 

1600 S
w

 A
rcher R

d 

6880 M
agnolia P

ark Lane 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32601 

N
orcross, G

A
 30093 



Olvislon of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MOA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 

Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 Pharmacist 
September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 1 of 30 

Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

23903 Novak,_Inna_____ 
Nabp Registration 

Shahida 09/27/2001 

26040 

2201 

24784__Khanum, Shahida 07/18/2002 

27407 Merchant,_Michael Cameron 05/28/2003 

27407 , Michael Cameron 05/2812003 

31324 Tonnu-Pham,_Hoanganh 05/16/2005 

31335 Hess, Gary Alan 05/16/2005 

Barnes, Lorna Marjorie 05116/2005 
2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 31266 

2201 31616 

2201 31608 

2201 31379 

2201 31562 

2201 31283 

2201 29382 

2201 31674 

2201 

2201 31844 

2201 31856 

31700 

2201 31884 

2201 

2201 29465 

r 

31339 

31557 Dillingham, Julie 05/23/2005 
- 

30405 RehmaLRaheeba J 

Ake, Thomas Robert 

Goldstein, Arnold Stanley 05/31/2005 

centrelle [ 06/01/20051 

Chol, Helen 

___________ 

Choi, 

Kim, Jennifer J 06/08/2005__ 
Stephanie Lynn 

Monteith David L 06/16/2005 

Douglass,_Sabrina Denise 

Tran, Vi Vu ho 06/1 - 
lgado, Edwin 06/21/2005 

Iöë/28/2005 
Torres Perez, Aida I — 

31166 
RodrirluezAnibal 07/07/2005 

32016 Lane, Jeremy Heath — 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

29540 
31926 
32047 

32049 

, Irma Patricia 

Tran, Phillip , Kui 

Thottempudi, Venkata D 

Ivey, Rhonda Gail 

2201 

32061 

32140 
31636 

32051 

07/15/2005 
07/15/2005 
07/22/2005 
07/22/2005 
08/03/2005 
08/08/2005 
08/12/2005 
08/12/2005 

Gade, Laxmi 

22014 Christopher, Lonnie Robert 

2201 Douglas, Jacqueline Nadine 

2201 24245 Carreno, Imelda 

Hunt, Libbye Denise 

Florida Department of Health 

08/15/2005 

-- FOR IINTERNAL USE ONLY -- 

— I 

pkg_rpt_app.P_dXa5l 9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 



COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 2 of 30 

Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MOA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 

2201 

31884 
32120 

Cabellero, lreneJ 
Patel, Leena Bhupendra 08/29/2005 

2201 31385 Jermyn,_Diana 09/01/2005 

2201 31974 Pate!, Swati V 09/02/2005 

2201 31826 Marquess, Jonathan Griffin 09/19/2005 

2201 32205 Pazon, Abigail Solonga 09/28/2005 

2201 32204 Khanum, Shahida 09/29/2005 

2201 

2201 

31974 Pate!, Swati V 

31992 tHuynh, Kevin M 

32027 T Onyeabor, George 0 

10/04/2005 
10/04/2005 
10/05/2005 

2201 29486 Kasemkhani, Farrah 10/07/2005 

2201 32280 Valencia, Joni 10/11/2005 

2201 32178 Darji,Lataben B ._____________________ 
2201 32125 Zachel, Theresa_Marie 10/20/2005 

2201 32255 Chang,_Jeannie Uijin 11/02/2005 

2201 32347 Anhl, Anu 11/02/2005 

2201 32332 Macas, Luzminda Dingding 11/07/2005 

2201 

2201 

32346 Tories, Hilda M 11/14/2005 

31420 North, Breanna M 11/16/2005 

2201 27667 Reyes, Ivette 11/17/2005 

2201 32249 Tran, Hung Van 11/28/2005 

2201 32370 Downs, John W 12/01/2005 

2201 32395 Ung, Robert 01/11/2006 

2201 32475 Chance,_Pamela 01/13/2006 

2201 32481 Cordy,_Catherine Ann 01/13/2006 

2201 29594 Levy, Jean-Baptise Pierre 01/18/2006 

2201 31713 Nguyen,TinaThuy 01/23/2006 

2201 32499 Zayas, Norma Olga_______ 01/24/2006 

2201 32411 Robinson, Barbara Evadnie 0 1/31/2006 

2201 32448 Charles Nelson 

2201 32404 Spellman, Usa Marie 

2201 32599 Azab, Noha Moustafa Abd El-.Latif 

02/01/2006 
02/10/2006 
02/23/2006 

- 

— 2201 32640 Carlson, CurtJ 03/13/2006 

2201 24611 Otegbola, Adenike Adedoyin 03/23/2006 

2201 32573 Rosendo, Luz M 03/29/2006 

2201 32578 

2201 32676 

Patel, Vipulkumar A 
— 

03/29/2006 
04/05/2006 Asghedom, Bererti Maasho 

2201 32681 Patel, Dipika 04/05/2006 

2201 32505 Whitesides, Cicely Rhea 04/07/2006 

29361 Gangadan, Sunil Raj 

2201 281 37 Azeez, 

2201 32721 Lerner, lnessa 

04/10/2006 
04/11/2006 
04/19/2006 

2201 32722 Jose, Sunitha 04/19/20061 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY — pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:09/12/2013 10:05.42 



COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 

Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 
September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 3 of 30 

Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MOA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 32470 Murphy, Jeffrey Stephen 04/27/2006 

2201 

2201 

31270 Octavio_De Pinaud, Lolita 05/01/2006 

24712 Orta, Norma I 05/02/2006 

2201 32556 Cabranes Torres, Hedda J 05/02/2006 

2201k 30968 Muhammad, Naweed 05/12/2006 

2201 32904 -____ 05/18/2006 

220Ij 32932 Patel, Ritesh QUip 05/18/2006 

2201 32933 Patel, Roshni 05/19/2006 

2201 33014 [ Jacobs, Angela Marie 05/31/2006 

2201 

32693 Pham, Theresa Luyen 06/01/2006 

31595 Patel, Sonal Nareshkumar 06/05/2006 

2201 33134 Gorgi, Haidy S 06/07/2006 

2201 32715 Havican, Suzanne_Nadra N 06/09/2006 

2201 33201 Nguyen, Diep Ngoc 06/09/2006 

2201 32625 Stevens, John D 06/13/2006 

2201 33184 

2201 32566 
Lewis, Angela Holston -_____ 

Edmons, Thomas Lee 

06/13/2006 
06/14/2006 

- 

2201 33140 PatIo, Matthew Jason 06/15/2006 

33150 

2201 33291 

Biancotti, Richard Alan 

Quella, Holli Erin 

06/19/2006k 
06/19/2006 

2201 32613 Tran, Bichlien Jenny 06/20/2006 

2201 32871 Vo, Nguyen-Ngoc Thi 06/21/2006 

2201 

2201 

32734 

33306 

Bohn, Stacey J 06/27/2006 

Bennett, Dana Marie T06/27/2006 
2201 33332 Lagares, Alexis 06/27/2006 

2201 

2201 

33333 
33290 

Gonzalez-Mercado, Noel A 

Tierno, Antonio Nicola 

06/27/2006 
06/29/2006 

—— 
2201 33389 Mathews, Jeji T 07/03/2006 

2201 32608 Dinh, Thomas Huan 07/06/2006 

2201 33400 T Nasser, Temur 07/06/2006 

2201 31943 Torres, Aida I 07/11/2006 

2201 33390 Nasser, Sabbah S 
1 

07/12/2006 

2201 33420 Robertson, Kimberley Ann 07/12/2006 

2201 32752 Dow, Loida Estella 07/19/2006 

2201 33454 De Jesus Torres, Irian 07/20/2006 

2201 32503 Franklin,_Lishunda Marie 07/24/2006 

2201 33466 Bell, Amber Vivian 07/26/2006 

2201 32665 Rosenhaft, Cindy Miller 08/01/2006 
1 

2201 33525 Patel, Leena Bhupendra 08/03/2006 

2201 33415 Taylor, Heather Renee 

T Solon, Happymarie Fajardo 

08/04/2006 - 

' 2201 33538 08/04/2006 

2201 33523 Hamel, Susan 08/07/2006 

2201 33531 Masintapan, Nattaya 08/07/2006 

2201 33540 Lemons, Jason K 

2201 33541 Jackson, Daphne Michelle 08/07/2006 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY-- 3 10:05:42 



OMsIon of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 4 of 30 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dXa51909/12/2013 10:05:42 

2201 33552 Torres, Carelis Marie 08/07/2006 

33309 

33563 Parks, Anna Stackis 

08/08/2006 

2201 - 

2201 

08/09/2006 
08/16/2006 

2201 33602 Chevere-Robles, Katiria M 08/28/2006 

2201 32990 Martin, Jon R 08/30/2006 

2201 32049 Thottempudi, Venkata D 09/07/2006 

2201 33504 Drucker, Linda Ann 09/12/2006 

2201 33609 Khodak, Alexander 
1 

09/13/2006 

2201 33622 Carrasco, Jose H 09/15/2006 

2201 32819 Veltry, Lauren Grace 09/26/2006 

2201 33606 Mahase, Vidhyanand 1 09/26/2006 

2201 33628 Allen, Debra Mae 09/29/2006 

2201 23965 Amaxas, Nicholas 10/09/2006 

2201 33431 Gulick, Shaney_Marie 10/09/2006 

2201 33616 Awosegun, Victoria Oluwatoyin 10/09/2006 

2201 32550 Singh, Satender Pal 10/11/2006 

2201 33644 Carpenter, Brenda_D 10/11/2006 

2201 33656 Mello, Lilian F L C 

Purvaj______ 
10/17/2006 

2201 32624 10/23/2006 

2201 32726 Pierre, Kathleen 10/23/2006 

2201 33354 Mitringa,_Slavko 0 10/23/2006 

2201 32419 Kauchak, James David Jr 10/30/2006 

2201 33621 Rodriguez, RafaelA 11/13/2006 , 

2201 31711 Rodriguez,Anibal 11/17/2006 

2201 
j 

33650 Troxtel,_KathHyn 11/17/2006 

2201 33706 Lynn, JenniferKay 11/17/2006 

2201 33715 Lee, James 11/21/2006 
- 2201 32444 Tabuteau, Ronald 12/06/2006 

2201 33646 Carter, David J 12/14/2006 I 

2201 33756 Chiti, Jennifer Lynn 01/03/2007 
2201 33559 Ezekwueche, Eugene Chikwelu 01/08/2007 

2201 33717 Gagliardo, Lou Matteo 01/17/2007 

2201 32762 Montfort, Dwight Randolph i__01/25/2007 
2201 33581 Labella, James Paul 02/01/2007 

2201 33696 Nachowitz, Sidney 02/15/2007 

2201 33724 Martinson, Thomas Brian 02/20/2007 

2201 33881 Ghobrial, Cicil 02/22/2007 

2201 33880 Pierce,_Brenda A 03/02/2007 

2201 33864 Pisiechko, John J 03/06/2007 

2201 33895 Joblin, Michael Andrew 03/22/2007 

2201 33922 Salam, Abdus 03/30/2007 
1 2201 32743 Bullard, Wallene Zerlina 04/03/2007 

2201 

2201 

33871 

33869 

Lewis, Daniel H 

Tran, RobertT 
04/09/2007 



DMslon of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

PageS of 30 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxaSl9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 

2201 33889 suls,TammyRenea 
2201 33807 KahI, Robert Alfred 

04/12/2007 
04/13/2007 
04/17/2007 

04/19/2007 
2201 

2201 

33909 George, Jacob 

33979 'Hassam, Vadooda Saher 

2201 34024 05/02/2007 L_____________________________ 
2201 33725 Troy Anthony 05/08/2007 

2201 33926 Bui, Loc Thi 05/08/2007 

2201 33648 Williams, Corrina Lynne 05/09/2007 

2201 34037 Wiggins, Shelley Chantel 05/17/2007 

2201 33933 Hamadeh, Nader A j05/29/2007 
Clem,CortneyJo 06/01/2007 2201 34260 

2201 34409 Aladro, Christina Marie 06/01/2007 

2201 34445 Kehoe, Joy Marie 06/05/2007 

2201 33347 Foran, John Huston Jr 06/08/2007 

2201 33721 Mckinney, Kareem Quinten 06/14/2007 

2201 34649 Scuro, Joseph Peter 06/14/2007 

2201 34286 King, Jesse Clifford 06/20/2007 

2201 34388 Patel, Samir J 06/21/2007 

2201 34631 Davis, Christian Nicole 06/21/2007 

2201 34650 Kane, Mabintou 06/22/2007 

2201 33995 Onyenekwe, Pearl Oluchi 06/25/2007 

2201 34348 Patel,Dipak Narendra 
2201 34799 Doshi, Snehal Himanshu 07/03/2007 

2201 34374 Khamissizadeh, Farhad 07/12/2007 

2201 34432 Thai, Uy Thanh 07/16/2007 

2201 34435 Duro Emanuel, Folasade 07/17/2007 

2201 34681 Ordenana, Noemi Ester 07/17/2007 

—— 2201 

2201 

33885 
33812 

Salu, Beverly Leonie 
Jass, Narina 

07/25/2007 
08/01/2007 

2201 34473 Makvandi, Farokh 08/24/2007 

2201 34766 Brewer, Osric S 08/30/2007 
2201 34961 Velez Rosado, Alexandra 

Lambert, Cynthia Maria 

2201 35015 Huynh, Kinh Van 

08/30/2007 
09/17/2007 

09/17/2007 

2201 

2201 

34995 Taft-Ellington, Jowanda L 

Marie 
34982 Tseng, Catherine Chih-Wen 

09/18/2007 
09/19/2007 

2201 09/24/2007 

2201 34933 Waldroup, Michael_William 09/25/2007 

2201 34989 Burt, Catherine Donahue 09/26/2007 

2201 35045 Ho, Thao Trang 10/05/2007 
2201 35047 Awosegun, Victoria Oluwatotin 10/05/2007 

2201 31080 Martinez, Maria Isabel 10/10/2007 

2201 34952 Essayas, Lulit 10/10/2007 

2201 34965 Morales, Andrea E 10/23/2007 

2201 35066 Torres-Marrero, Cristina Teresa 1 
10/23/2007 



Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 

Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 
September 12, 2013 

Licensee Name Eligible Date 

Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 6 of 30 

Exam Modifiers 

Dang, Willis 11/28/2007 

Wilkerson, Nancy Karen 12/11/2007 

12127/2007 

2201 35082 Townsend, Sandi Thibodeaux 11/01/2007 

2201 35072 

2201 35170 James 

2201 35196 Kogut,JenniferA 
220124778 
2201 34864 Obianwu, Uchenna Azuka 

34898 Phung, Hallien Thi 01/10/2008 2201 

2201 35195 
35224 

01/04/2008 
01/09/2008 

- 01 

D'Agostino, Edward A 

Meyervich, Jane 

01/11/2008 
01/17/2008 

2201 35226 Perez-Miranda, Loida 01/17/2008 

2201 35227 Calabrese, Michelle_Nicole 

2201 35255 Cintron, Lizzandra Enid 

01/17/2008 
02/01/2008 

, 2201 35289 Kerklingh, Brenda_Teresa 02/14/2008 

2201 35045 Ho, Thao Trang 02/20/2008 

2201 35312 Daniel,_Joshua Paul 02/27/2008 
03/04/2008 2201 

2201 

2201 

2 

2201 

35050 Lin, Sally C 

35272 Freeman, Nicole Monique 03/18/2008 T 
1 

35326 Van Nest, Clifford Ian 03/18/2008 

35301 Hynds, Raymond Russell 04/16/2008 

35331 Santos, Maria M 04/16/2008 

35139 Hendrickson_Yee, Holly Renee 05/01/2008 
2201 

2201 

2201 35406 Polit, Robert Ronald 05/08/2008 

Tyler, 

2201 35553 Arunmanakul, Poukwan 

2201 35683 Ward,CatherineAshtofl 
35684 Jessup, 

2201 35383 Herndon, James Charles 

0515/2008 
05/16/2008 
05/21 /2008T 

I 

05/21/2008 
05/23/2008 

2201 34420 Ott, Nathan_John 05/29/2008 

2201 35758 Castfflo, 06/03/2008 

2201 

2201 35818 Schwartz,_Natalia 06/04/2008 

2201 35824 Georgelos,_Harriet J 06/05/2008 

2201 

2201 

2201 

35932 Sioris, Kelly Marie 06/09/2008 

1 36015 Colon, Sheila_Damaris 06/19/2008 
I 

36116 Maddox, Mia Antionette 06/24/2008 H 
2201 36126 Osborne, Joel Arthur 07/01/2008 

1 2201 35364 Clark, Tiffany C 07/22/2008 

2201 36196 White, Edward_Christopher 07/22/2008 

2201 
; 

36222 Morgan, Charlotte Regnie 07/22/2008 

2201 36230 I Thomas, Kori Latay 07/22/2008 

0 

Ae 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- 13 10:05.42 



COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 7 of 30 

DMslon of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MOA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 

2201 

2201 

36268 
36269 

36299 

Davis, Vanessa Denise 08/07/2008 

Do, Trin C 08/07/2008 

Stanley, Robert L 08/07/2008 

2201 35347 Nixon, Johnie Paul 08/19/2008 

2201 35053 Egbuonu, Flora Nkechi 08/21/2008 

2201 35264 Mridha, Md A Samad 08/21/2008 

2201 34957 Khan, Niaz All 08/22/2008 

2201 35171 Lee,Juhyun 08/22/2008 

2201 36297 1 Engram, Samaiyah Geneise 08/22/2008 

2201 36138 Page, Robert Nicholas 

2201 35688 Aaron, Marieta Gamutan 

2201136042 Victoria T 

08/26/2008 T 

09/03/2008 
09/03/2008 

2201 36363 Ruiz, Jairo 09/09/2008 

2201 35395 Diviak, Michael John 10/09/2008 

2201 36365 Sigal, Korina 10/20/2008 

2201 36170 Bazzi,AIiS 10/22/2008 

2201 36381 Lantaff-Herrero, Isabel 10/22/2008 

2201 36211 Oliver, Aaron Jeremy 10/23/2008 

2201 31713 Nguyen, Tina Thuy 10/27/2008 

2201 36454 Sepulveda, Lavimar 10/27/2008 

2201 36447 Aher, Vivekanand Yashwant 10/28/2008 
I 

2201 1 36386 Mancini, Rosa 10/30/2008 

2201 36444 Kandula, Lakshmi Sirisha 11/05/2008 

2201 36508 Faour, Mhd Salem 12/04/2008 

2201 36506 Allen Wayne 12/10/2008 --___ 
2201 36557 Gftelman, Radmila 12/11/2008 — 

2201 36544 Garas, Lydia Raduf 12/12/2008 

2201 36486 Stell, Lawrence Edwin 12/18/2008 

36466 Stifter, Timothy Francis 12130/2008 

2201 36554 Tucker,_Angelina_Rohanna 12/30/2008 

2201 35411 Rothstein, Alvin 0 1/06/2009 

2201 36561 Pathumsaengthona, Aphinya 01/06/2009 

2201 36585 Mercado,_Lysandra 01/06/2009 

2201 36597 Suwanphattana,_Piraporn 01/06/2009 

2201 
1 

36387 
j 

Peller, Allen Leonard 01/08/2009 

2201 36572 Genova, Rositsa Gencheva 01/08/2009 

2201 36601 Punzalan,_Ehner_lgnack 

2201 36616 
I 

Shehzad, Khurram 01/08/2009 

2201 36568 Huang, Chia Yu 0 1/09/2009 

2201 36586 Bakar, Kombo Abdulla 0 1/22/2009 

2201 36605 Eadula, Sandeep Reddy 01/23/2009 

2201 36666 Patel, Brijal Ganpatbhai 01/26/2009 - 

2201 36565 Howell, Sandra Kay 01/27/2009 

2201 36610 Dhulia, Umadevi Neil 01/27/2009 

2201 36611 Gill, Sukhdial Singh 01/27/2009 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY — pkg_rptapp.p_dxa5l9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 



COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 8 of 30 

Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

36620 Vasou, Christos Michael 

2201 jParlitsis-Vasou,_Ellen____ 

01/28/2009 
01/28/2009 

22011 
2201 

36560 Bruce_Samuel 02/02/2009 

36636 Patel, Avani Karshanbhai 02/02/2009 
—- -______ — 

2201 — 36647 Ting, Wariyi 02/02/2009 

2201 

2201 

35255 Cintron, Lizzandra Enid 02/13/2009 

36682 Dougherty, Susan Hammami 1 02/16/2009 

2201 35312 Daniel, Joshua Paul 
r 

02/25/2009 

2201 36703 Joseph, Jeen 02/25/2009 

2201 35334 Mcclure, Joshua Nathan 02/26/2009 

2201 35404 Majethia, Sunil Mulji 02/26/2009 

2201 36598 Skariah, Lisa Kelakombil 03/02/2009 

2201 36397 1 Gonzalez, Gloria Maria 03/09/2009 

2201 36681 Hudgins,_Nicole 03/09/2009 

2201 36673 Shah, Snehal J 03/10/2009 

2201 36704 Shakeel, Qaisar 03/10/2009 

2201 36723 Khanafer, Ramez 03/18/2009 

2201 36738 Losch, Andrew Philip 03/18/2009 

2201 36757 Chen, Chien-Pei 03/18/2009 

2201 35015 Huynh,KinhVan 03/27/2009 

2201 35170 Lee, James 03/27/2009 

2201 32051 Douglas, Jacqueline_Nadine 03/31/2009 

2201 35343 Hershfield, David Alan 04/07/2009 

2201 36537 Vallecillo, YamileM 
2201 36769 

1 

Hildebrand, Chad Allan____ 
2201 35264 

36538 jBaltodano, Elizabeth 

2201 36427 
I 

Miller, Penney Kay 

04/22/2009 

05/04/2009L 

05/07/2009 

2201 35742 Jackson, Kesha Alyse 05/08/2009 

2201 36828 Smith, Laura Elizabeth 05/12/2009 

2201 37152 Young, Cole David 05/18/2009 

2201 

2201 

37130 
37173 

Allen, Kimberly Michelle 05/19/2009 

2201 33922 Salam, Abdus 05/28/2009 

2201 36970 Erickson, Charles Paul 05/28/2009 

2201 

2201 

33895 
32477 

Joblin, Michael_Andrew 
Berkeley, Karen Lynette 

06/15/2009 
06/16/2009 

2201 36820 Chen,_Charlene Marie 06/16/2009 

2201 35411 Rothstein, Alvin 06/17/2009 
1 

2201 36699 Horowitz,_Richard 06/17/2009 

2201 

2201 

37429 Andrew Michael 

37432 Gyapong,_Eugenia____________ 

06/17/2009 
06/17/2009 1 

I 2201 37439 Belani, Anjali S 06/17/2009 

2201 36763 Stagg, Julie Rae 06/23/2009 

2201 36955 Bandy, Michael 06/24/2009 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 3 10:05:42 



COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Date 

Page 9 of 30 

Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MOA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 

2201 

36982 

37200 

Hill, Naomi Ruthia 

Girgis, Jacob Adel 

06/24/2009 

06/24/2009 

2201 37281 Thompson, Crystal Maria 06/25/2009 

2201 37441 Church, Cassandra Lee 06/25/2009 

2201 36462 Elgadi, Mohamed I 06/26/2009 

2201 37524 Finamore, Ashley Brooks f 06/26/2009 

2201 37003 Mccormick,_Juliet Gothelf 06130/2009 

2201 37586 Medrano, Gladys Elena 06/30/2009 

2201 36577 Thomas Mathew 
—_____ 
Harvey, Stephen Scott 

07/02/2009 

2201 37616 07/07/2009 

2201 

2201 

37352 1 

37468 

Martinez, Karla 

Allen, Kari Meredith 

07/08/2009 
07/10/2009 

2201 37670 Brewer, Michael Shane 07/10/2009 

2201 37750 Samir, Ayman 07/13/2009 

{2201 
2201 

37751 

37711 Abid,JosephShenouda 
07/13/2009 
07/14/2009 

2201 37712 Abid, Salwa Shenouda 
1 

07/14/2009 

2201 37706 Ramos-Mercado, Debra 07/15/2009 

2201 36844 Gattu, Sandhyarani 07/23/2009 

2201 37762 Natsheh, Feda M 07/27/2009 

2201 37805 Fleurinor, Jussien 07/28/2009 

2201 37833 Roque, Jacqueline 07/30/2009 

2201 37810 Kohli,Ashok 08/04/2009 

2201 36862 Donovan,_Cortney Leigh 08/06/2009 

2201 37607 Bliss, Arthur Richard 08/06/2009 

2201 24568 Anderson, Glen Keith 08/12/2009 

H 2201 37638 

2201 37820 

Jennifer Mary 

Torres Torres, Jose Angel 

08/12/2009 
08/20/2009 

2201 36222 Morgan, Charlotte Regine 08/25/2009 
1 

2201 36299 Stanley, Robert L 09/03/2009 

2201 36230 Thomas, Kori Latay j 09fl4/2009 

2201 31061 Brunner, James William 
+ 

09/15/2009 

2201 36297 Engram, Samaiyah Geneise 09/15/2009 

2201 36782 Qureshi, Azam All 09/17/2009 

2201 36116 Maddox,MiaAntionette 09/21/2009 

2201 35069 Patel, Bhura Joita Bhai 09/24/2009 

2201 37764 Narayanan, Anand 09/30/2009 

2201 37855 1 Sharpe, Marian Yvonne 10/05/2009 

2201 37972 Denson, Benea Ousley 10/06/2009 

2201 36381 Lantaff-Herrero, Isabel 10/07/2009 

2201 
L 

Cortes, Zaida 10/07/2009 

2201 37941 Hernandez, Ismary Enid 10/07/2009 

2201 37951 Cruz-Perez, Wendy Mariet 

37962 Jamin, Yuniarti Utami 

10/07/2009 

10/08/2009 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR tNTERNAL USE ONLY -- 10:05:42 



COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 10 of3O 

Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MOA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 35053 Egbuonu,_Flora Nkechi L_10/14/2009 
2201 32444 Tabuteau, Ronald 10/19/2009 

2201 37714 Philip, Prasad Kunnel 1 10/19/2009 

2201 37943 Ramirez-Sanchez,_Karma Ines 10/21/2009 

2201 37985 Heintz, Kyle Michael 10/23/2009 

2201 36444 Kandula, Lakshmi Sirisha 10/26/2009 

2201 37983 Abellard, Jean Roland 10/29/2009 

2201 37293 Bernstein, Jeffrey Alan____ 11/03/2009 

2201 37858 Burgess, Ricky_Edward 11/03/2009 

2201 

2201 

38002 Maureen Elizabeth 

36196 White, Edward Christopher 

36592 Nkangnia-Njomo, Chantal Sylvie 

11/23/2009 
11/30/2009 

12/08/2009 

2201 36508 Faour, Mhd Salem 12/24/2009 

2201 38092 Knight, Cedric 0 Ii 12/28/2009 
H 

2201 32120 Patel, Leena Bhupendra 01/04/2010 

2201 37865 Sivick, Larrow Anthony 01/04/2010 

2201 38117 Gorasiya, lleshkumar Popatlal 01/14/2010 

2201 38133 Lama, Bimala 01/14/2010 

2201 

2201 

38142 

38143 

Lin, Yijun 

Kankanala, Ragini 

01/14/2010 

01/14/2010 1 

2201 38091 Patel, Hitesh H 01/19/2010 

2201: 38093 
I ——__38114 

Okaro, ObinnaNwabunwanne 
Yadav, Kumari Unnati Vajesjnh -— 01/19/20101 

01/19/2010 2201 38115 Patel, NikunjkmarJivanlal 

2201 38129 Tan,_Li-Hua 01/20/2010 

2201 38130 Shah, Kaushal Pankajkumar 01/20/2010 

2201 33616 Awosegun, Victoria Oluwatoyin 01/21/2010 

2201 38136 Bessette, Daniel Robert 01/25/2010 

Shivana 01/26/2010 

2201 38156 Patel, Rajvi Hemant 01/26/2010 

2201 38161 Patel,_Swatibahen_C 02/08/2010 

2201 27505 Sevak, Ravi Prafull 02/09/2010 

2201 36616 Shehzad, Khurram 02/09/2010 

2201 32204 Khanum, Shahida 02/16/2010 

2201 38224 Ferguson, Leida Marie 02/16/2010 

2201 38157 Hilaire, Nathalie Alexandra 03/03/2010 

2201 38244 Kelly, Jennifer Lee 03/09/2010 

2201 

2201 

24689 
36427 Miller, Penney Kay 

03/10/2010 
03/10/2010 

2201 38034 Newman-Mckenzie,_Diane_Fiona 03/10/2010 

2201 38235 Naso,JoanneV 03/10/2010 

2201 38246 

38260 

O'Neil, Collin James 03/10/2010 

03fl8I20W 

2201 34961 Velez Rosado, Alexandra 03/22/2010 

2201 25845 Galli, Robert Michael 03/23/2010 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 



Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 11 of3O 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY-- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:09/12/2013 

2201 38269 Johnsey, Jeremy Hudson 03/23/2010 

2201 38265 Tameze,_Auguste Aouanang 03/25/2010 

2201 37755 Rizzetto,_Geny Besa 03/30/2010 

2201 38203 Sakharkar, Prashant Raghunath 03/31/2010 

2201 36699 Horowitz, Richard 04/01/2010 

2201 36874 Nakaya,_Morey Mamoru 04/13/2010 

2201 Emad 04/14/2010 

2201 32092 Ahmad, Usman 04/15/2010 

2201 38308 Burt, Lauren Elizabeth 04/15/2010 

2201 38283 1 Mowery, Daniel Frederick 04/19/2010 

2201 37525 Abdelmelek, Mervat Yasaker 04/20/2010 
Yacoub 

2201 38343 Kodersha, Albert D_______ 04/20/2010 

2201 38359 Ghali, Christine Boulos 04/22/2010 

2201 31071 Kanaparthy,_Manjula 04/28/2010 

2201 32574 Preminger, Deborah 04/28/2010 

2201 38387 Zeigler, Ricky L 04/28/2010 

2201 38403 Sanchez, Reylene 04/28/2010 

2201 38338 Kolhe, Amolkumar 05/06/2010 

2201 36744 Rooprai,_Supreeti 05/10/2010 

2201 38288 Morales, Ana Mercedes 05/18/2010 

2201 38527 Fuller, Christine Elaine 05/18/2010 

—- 2201 38532 Cabug,Jamie-Nell Andrada 05/19/2010 

2201 38150 Mcguire, Thomas Warren 05/24/2010 

2201 38232 Whitney, Dennis John 05/24/2010 

2201 38424 Oliva, Gigi Rosemary 05/24/2010 

2201 38556 Issa Ossais, Carimi Marina 05/24/2010 

2201 38564 Ratkovic, Jelena 05/24/2010 

2201 38345 Ailor, James Johnson Jr 05/26/2010 

2201 38385 Rodriguez Manrique, Rafael 06/02/2010 
Antonio 

2201 06/02/2010 

2201 38833 Jump, Brandon Michael 06/08/2010 

2201 38959 

Shah, Shreya Amit 06/15/2010 

Fasonu, Olalekan Olatunbosun 06/16/2010 

2201 38769 Fowowe, Olayinka 06/17/2010 

2201 38917 Xu, Eric Duo 06/17/2010 

2201 38891 Limoncelli, Nicholas 06/21/2010 

2201 38430 Schuman,_William I 06/22/2010 

2201 39088 Heifron, Bradley Thomas 06/28/2010 

39096 Vacha, Sharon Lee J__06/28/2010 2201 

2201 38325 Fronton,_Elizabeth Louise 06/29/2010 

2201 38561 06/29/2010 

2201 39092 Pitts, Jacqueline Nicole 06/30/2010 



COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 12 of 30 

Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MOA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:3 1AM 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 39125 Monks,HelenAnne 06/30/2010 

2201 35170 Lee,James 07/06/2010 

2201 39151 Alegre, Jessica Ria 07/06/2010 

2201 39161 Rivera, Lilliam Teresa 07/12/2010 

2201 39167 Garcia Concepcion, Rosa De 
Lourdes_______ 

07/12/2010 

2201 39185 Rivera,_Enid 07/12/2010 

2201 39241 Thaudboina, Venkateshwarlu_____ 07/1412010 

2201 39258 Nguyen, Huong-Thuy Thi 07/15/2010 

2201 39208 Gibson,Julia Louisa 07/16/2010 

2201 39171 Almodovar-Rodriguez, Ingrid Mariel 07/21/2010 

2201 39277 Bach,Thanh-HuyLe 07/21/2010 

2201 39286 Gomez, Aisha Kwanza 07/26/2010 

2201 39290 Gordon, Ivory Alexis 07/26/2010 

2201 39306 Collazo-Gerena, Monica 07/27/2010 

2201 39202 Titak,JohnAdam 07/28/2010 

2201 36397 Gonzalez, Gloria Maria 07/29/2010 

2201 37764 Narayanan, Anand 08/03/2010 

2201 36681 Hudgins,_Nicole 08/09/2010 

2201 39336 Demian, Nancy 08/09/2010 

2201 36268 Davis, Vanessa Denise 08/25/2010 

2201 35008 Chintamaneni, Amelia Randeo 08/30/2010 

2201 

2201 

39377 

33922 

Tracy Nease 

Salam, Abdus 09/07/2010 

2201 38458 Gupta,Adarsh 09/13/2010 

2201 39404 Edward,HanyS 09/13/2010 

22014 39339 

2201 36844 

Yirgu, Derege Hailu 

Gattu, Sandhyarani 

09/14/2010 
09/15/2010 

2201 33707 Martinez, Maria Isabel 09/22/2010 

2201 39426 Robinson, Tamika Renee 09/22/2010 

2201 39436 Lawal, Erica Ayisat 09/22/2010 

1 2201 37833 Roque, Jacqueline 09/23/2010 

2201 39439 Hernandez-Lassalle, Aixa Lynn 09/23/2010 

2201 37751 Pendyala, Ramarao 1 09/27/2010 

2201 37951 Cruz-Perez,_Wendy_Mariet 09/27/2010 

2201 39474 Oboh, Onovughode Tega 10/07/2010 

2201 36299 Stanley, Robert L 10/18/2010 

2201 39405 Teferi, Gashaw Takele 10/19/2010 

2201 39433 Forbes,_Theresa_Thomas 10/20/2010 

2201 38041Lin,PhylhsHungyu 10/25/20101 
2201 Marc 10/25/2010] 

11/02/2010 

2201 I 39400 Choque,_Jesus Alejandro 11/04/2010 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 



COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 

Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 
September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM Page 13 of 30 

Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 32120 Patel, Leena Bhupendra 11/08/2010 

2201 39447 Wisthoff, Bruce James 11/08/2010 

2201 38230 Laham, Josephine 11/10/2010 

L 
2201 39419 Awadalla, Michael 12/08/2010 

2201 Sharpe, Marian Yvonne 12/13/2010 —_______ 

2201 

2201 

2201 

36808 Smolen, Arnold Kent 

39480 Sanchez, Katherine 12/1 4/2010 

33616 Awosegun,_Victoria Oluwatoyin 12/15/2010 

2201 39537 Crouse, Matthew Stephens 12/20/2010 

2201 35264 Mridha,MdASamad 12/21/2010 

2201 39618 Samaan,JosephlannOUS 01/12/2011 

2201 

2201 

24356 

37762t 
Ulanow, Gail Lorraine 

Natsheh,FedaM 

01/13/2011 

01/18/2011 

2201 

P 2201 

2201 

39655 

39478 

Nakagawa,_Naoto 
Duong, Phong Xuan 

01/18/2011 
01/19/2011 

39613 Chen,Shiow-Yan 01/19/2011 

2201 39616 Cheng,Ting 01/19/2011 

2201 39617 Patel, Hetalkumar Sankalchand 01/19/2011 

2201 39623 Xiong,_Lianjie 01/19/2011 

2201 36560 Taylor,_Bruce Samuel 01/20/2011 

2201 39517 Ta-Sie, Kayly 01/20/2011 

2201 

2201 

2201 

39632 
1 

39667 
36560 

Gramer, Jeanine Marie 

West, Pamela Kay 

Taylor, Bruce Samuel 

01/20/2011 

01/25/2011 

2201 39634 Watts-Johnson,DorothyLee 01/25/2011 

2201 33646 Carter, David J 01/27/2011 

2201 35343 Hershfield, David Alan 01/27/2011 

2201 39175 Alvaro,_Fred 01/27/2011 

2201 39557 Snyder, Robert Bruce 02/01/2011 

2201 39679 Rajyaguru, Komal Ratilal 02/01/2011 

2201 32444 Tabuteau, Ronald 02/07/2011 

2201 39432 Sanzen, Richard Ralph 02/08/2011 

2201 39059 lkpeazu, Maureen A C 02/09/2011 

2201 

2201 

39659 
39694 

Floyd, Andrea Marie 

' Shah, Kahani Shaileshkumar 

02/09/2011 

02/09/2011 

2201 39686 Hsu, Chan-Chien 02/10/2011 

2201 39261 Patrick, Ronald Kevin 02/14/2011 

2201 39681 Zilban, Natalie 02/14/2011 

2201 36508 Faour, Mhd Salem 02/16/2011 

2201 39547 Hsu, Ellen 02/16/2011 

L 2201 39764 Mayers, Natalie Ann 02/28/2011 

2201 39647 White, Jasmine Doreen 03/03/2011 

22011_3860 12011 
2201 36381 Lantaff-Herrero, Isabel 03/31/2011 

39746 - Hamed, Sabri Hassan 04/05/2011 

Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MOA 
Profession File Nbr Licensee Name 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dXa51909/12/20l3 10:05:42 



COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 

Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 
September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 14 of3O 

Division of 
Medical Qualily Assurance 

MQA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 39769 Louie Raymond 04/05/2011 

2201 39780 Lowery, Rachael Nielsen 04/05/2011 41 Lln,Phyllis_Hungyu 1 
L 

2201 39900 I Kapidzic,_Munevera 04/07/2011 

39779 Macdonald, SotiriaMakris 04/12/2011 
1 

2201 39902 Punnoose, Brian 04/14/2011 

2201 32049 Thottempudi,VenkataD 04/18/2011 

2201 

2201 

-__34961 V&ez Alexandra 

24784 Khanum,Shahida 

04/19/2011 
04/20/2011 

2201 

2201 

39598 

— 396761 
39948 

Botts, Leann Renee 

Jones, William Russell 

Moussa, Maha Samir Kyrillos 

04/20/2011 

04/20/20111 
04/25/2011 I 

2201 

2201 

39891 

39923 

Deflegrotti,_Sarah Mae 

Ramos Mercado, Adlin 04/26/2011 
1 

2201 

2201 

2201 

38093 
39761 

Okaro ObinnaNwabunwanfle____ 04/27/2011 

05/02/2011 

39869 Toney, Colleen Marie 05/03/2011 

2201 36616 Shehzad, Khurram 05/04/2011 

2201 39894 Garces, Idalmis Catalina 05/04/2011 

2201L 
2201 

39909 
39986 IMerkel, Jennifer Jean 

05/09/2011 

05/10/2011 

2201 39929 Zabala, Clara 05/12/2011 

2201 39924 Rodriguez, Deborah Ivette 05/19/2011 
I 

31071 Kanaparthy, Manjula 05/20/2011 

2201 40185 Hok,Saly 05/20/2011 

2201 39969 RobI, Jacob Maurice 05/23/2011 
T 

2201 39985 Moreau,Lisa Kay 05/23/2011 

2201 23687 Malinsky, Julia 05/24/2011 

2201 40166 Roberts, Michelle Eliza 05/24/2011 

2201 

2201 

40299 
40272 

Pham,TrungMinh 
Roark, Krista_Page 

05/24/2011 

05/25/2011 
— 2201 40351 Bradley, Monet Shambria 05/26/2011 

2201 40396 Abalkhail, Abdullah Ibrahim 05/31/2011 

I 2201 39915 Xiong,Yang 06/06/2011 

2201 39921 Menendez Sanabria, Daniel 06/07/2011 

2201 40479 Porter, Tiffany Marie 06/08/2011 

2201 

2201 

40462 Lee,Yi-Yun 06/10/2011 

40465 Kehrberg, Andrew Robert 06/10/2011 

2201 40497 tBenjamjn,phaneze 06/10/2011 

2201 
L 

Mattson, James Joshua 
06/10/2011 

2201 06/13/2011 

40093 Macedo, Livia Rodrigues 06/14/2011 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dXa5l 9:09/i 12013 10:05:42 



of 
Medical Qualily Assurance 

MQA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

Page 15 of3O 

2201 33723 Onwuanaibe, Louis 06/15/2011 

2201 

39767k 
36447 

MorrUl, Richard Arthur 
Aher,Vivekanand Yashwant 

06/15/2011t 
06/20/2011 

2201 39872 Ha,HienDien 06/21/2011 

2201 39890 Richardson, Bradley Neil 06/21/2011 

2201 40364 Wasik, Dawn Marie 06/21/2011 

2201 40680 Hatala, Alexis Brenna 06/21/2011 

2201 40695 Patel, Devangi Deval T 06/21/2011 

2201 40727 Colbert, Kristyn Lynn 06/23/2011 

2201 

2201 

2201 

40111 

40759 
40763 

Cooper,_Mark Charles 

Patel, Trushaar Maganbhai — 

Poon, Chi Ki 

06/27/2011 

06/2712011 

06/27/20 1 1 

2201 39839 Gharad, HayatMohamed 
Khounsombath, Kathy 

06/28/2011 

2201 40665 07/05/2011 

2201 

40783 Pereira,_Ninoshka 
40784 Rosarlo, Jacqueline 

40787 HiUyard,Magan Ogden 

07/06/2011 
07/06/2011 
07/06/2011 

2201 40790 Goodson, James William 07/06/2011 

2201 40795 Jacobs, Brooke Ashley 07/06/2011 

2201 

2201 

40805 
40819 

Rodriguez-Rivero,AnaJ 
Shaker, Marlene Kerolos 

07/06/2011 
07/08/2011 

2201 40824 Dolan, Megan Jean 07/12/2011 

2201 40602 Keeth,KimberlyErin 07/18/2011 

2201 40863 Al-Baldawi, Ruaa Nabil 07/18/2011 

2201 40871 Lee, Jammy 07/19/2011 

2201 39908 Rivers, Shellie Ann 07/20/2011 

2201 39989 Moise, Tamara Chrystele 07/20/2011 

2201 40883 Haass-Koffler, Carolina Luisa 07/20/2011 

- 40714 Duncan, Douglas Eugene 

2201 40906 Creel, Amanda Holloway 

07/25/2011 

07/26/2011 t 
2201 40912 Vargas-Torres,_Yarimar 07/27/2011 1 

2201 40764 Hernandez, Mabel Teresa 07/28/2011 

2201 40885 Perez, Bonnie Marie 08/01/2011 

2201 40684 Guerrero, Cynthia Barbara 08/02/2011 

2201 40864 Beidoe, Gabriel Kweku 08/02/2011 

2201 40968 Johnson, Jeremie Thomas 08/03/2011 

2201 40960 Neissari, Sara 08/08/2011 

2201 36297 Engram, SamaiyahGeneise 08/10/2011 

2201 40976 Newton,Alan Dalton 08/10/2011 

2201 40983 Caraballo-Feliciano, Alexis 08/10/2011 

2201 40776 More, LisyV 08/11/2011 

2201 40987 Santana Colon, Vanessa 08/11/2011 

2201 40348 Stallings, Amanda Joy 08/12/2011 

2201 

2201 

40997 

j 
41003 

Kotecha, Palak 

Eugene, Christina Marie Louise 

08/17/2011 
08/17/2011 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY pkg_rpt_app.p_dxaSl9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name 



Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

Processed: 9R2/2013 10:06:3JAM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 16of30 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 

2201 30218 08/18/2011 

2201 41014 Lugo, Raquel 08/23/2011 

1 [ 2201 39313 Roberts, Yolanda April______ 08/24/2011 
I 2201 41025 Rivera Feliciano, Marangely 08/24/2011 I 

2201 41026 Young JennyHui-Shan i 08/24/2011 

2201 39646 Sakyi, Stephanie Agyepomaa 09/01/2011 

2201 39861 Paine, Cassie Cole 09/01/2011 

2201 39307 Olem,_Andrew Marc 09/06/2011 

2201 39446 Stolarski, Shirley Charlotte T 09/08/2011 

2201 41041 EspadaTorres,Anabel 09/08/2011 

2201 38556 lssa Ossais, Carimi Marina t 09/12/2011 

2201 41045 Garcia, Nirma Rebecca 09/12/2011 

2201 39400 Choque,JesusAlejandro 09/15/2011 

2201 39742 Komandur,Sushma 09/20/2011 

2201 41077 Albarran, Jennifer Denisse 09/20/2011 

2201 41079 Rodriguez, Sandra Ivette 09/26/2011 

1 2201 39904 Economy, Andrea Mary 09/27/2011 

2201 39940 Lue, Mark Anthony 09/27/2011 

2201 41099 Adu Siaw, Angela Naa Korkoi 10/03/2011 

2201 40891 Phillips, Christopher Matthew 10/06/2011 

2201 41050 Rice, David John 10/06/2011 

2201 41066 LD&gado Nazario, Frank 10/06/2011 

2201 38385 Rodriguez Manrique, Rafael 10/14/2011 
Antonio 

2201 39884 Bullington, Jeffrey Thomas 10/14/2011 

2201 41083 Higginson, Chase Bradford 10/14/2011 

2201 41109 Hosseinyar, Kathy Tahereh 10/18/2011 

2201 26075 Jules, Nelly Carmelle 10/20/2011 

2201 36222 Morgan, Charlotte Regine 10/20/2011 

2201 41057 Schultz, Kristen Ann 10/25/2011 

2201 41110 Seidman,_Richard Niles 10/25/2011 

2201 41127 Farrell, Alison Nancy 10/25/2011 

2201 33922 Salam,_Abdus 1 10/26/2011 

2201 40845 Black, Melissa Montgomery 10/27/2011 

2201 41145 Smith, Deborah Ann 10/28/2011 

2201 38377 Trista, Maria Del Carmen 10/31/2011 

2201 41034 Geeza, Elham 11/01/2011 

2201 41176 Wolfson,_Edward Donald 11/08/2011 1 

2201 41092 Patel,SunnyJ 11/21/2011 

2201 39426 Robinson,TamikaRenee 11/22/2011 

2201 41187 Robinson, Rose Lee 11/22/2011 

2201 38041 Lin, Phyllis Hungyu 11/30/2011 

2201 39436 Lawal, Erica Ayisat 12/07/2011 

2201{ 34024 Ramineni,Bharath Shyam 

Harreld, WilUam Grady ——____ 

——_______ 
12/19/2011 

1 



of COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Medical Quality Assurance 

Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

1\Jt September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM Page 17 of 30 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 

2201 

41239 
37751 

Lopez Rub, Ivonne Maile______ 
Pendyala,_Ramarao 

12/29/2011 

12/30/2011 

2201 41267 Sales, Maria Lovella Brucal 01/04/2012 

2201 41225 Depasquale, Seth Herbert 01/05/2012 

2201 

2201 

41243 

41246 

Faldu, Gaurav Bhagvanjibhai 

Savalia, 
Shah, Daivik Kirankumar 

01/09/2012 
01/09/2012 

. 2201 01/09/2012 

2201 41260 Shah, Anandkumar Natvarlal 01/09/2012 

2201 38034 Newman-Mckenzie, Diane Fiona 01/12/2012 

40985 Williams, Jimmy Lee 01/12/2012 

2201 

2201 

39665 
41282 

Avery Moss 

Chun, Pusoon 

01/17/2012 
01/17/2012 

2201 41292 Liu, Rui 01/23/2012 

2201 41293 Lu, Lingyun______ 01/23/2012 

2201 41319 Phan,YvonneLe 01/30/2012 

2201 40877 Shah, Dhruva Harish____ 02/08/2012 

2201 41268 Surana, Neha 02/08/2012 

2201 24784 Khanum, Shahida 02/13/2012 

2201 41341 Riwes, Basant Diaa 02/13/2012 

2201 33616 Awosegun, Victoria Oluwatoyin 02/20/2012 

2201 39795 Mohiar, Zita 02/201?012__j 

2201 41339 Hakim, Wafaa Dakhlallah 02/20/2012 

2201 41364 Markovic,JohhnyChris 02/21/2012 

2201 

2201 

41333 

1 41312 
ia 
Fowler, Jessica Renee 

:02/22/2012 T 

02/27/2012 

2201 41376 Davis, David Anthony 02/27/2012 

2201 41387 Rodriguez-Morales,_Glamaris 02/27/2012 

2201 41235 Plagakis, James Lee 02/29/2012 

2201 37833 Roque, Jacqueline 03/05/2012 

2201 41249 Aboueid, George 03/05/2012 

2201 39767 Morrill, Richard Arthur 03/07/2012 
2201 41402 Wen, Hsiang-Chun 03/07/2012 

2201 36808 Smolen, Arnold Kent 03/14/2012 

2201 41375 Whaley, Ronald Carl 03/14/2012 

2201 31943 
Khoshbaf_Khiabanian, Shirin 

T03/15/2012 
2201 41306 03/27/2012 

2201 32444 Tabuteau, Ronald 03/28/2012 

2201 41450 Fernandez Gonzalez, Alexis 04/04/2012 

2201 

2201 

41377 

41418 

Davis, Kristy Lauren 
Wilborn, Courtney Anne 

04/09/2012 
04/09/2012 

2201 41431 Wassef, Mina Moneer 04/10/2012 

2201 41455 Alvarez De Dolan, LII Del C 04/10/2012 

2201 

2201 

41458 

34961 

Maharaj, Reena 

Velez Rosado,_Alexandra 

04/10/2012 

04/16/2012 

2201 39929 Zabala, Clara 04/18/2012 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY-- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:09/1212013 10:05:42 





Division of 
Medical Assurance 

MOA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 19 of3O 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 40478 Shafiee, Mohammad Amin_______ 06/21/2012 

2201 

2201 

42353 
42379 

Crane, Michelle Antoinette 
Harold_Humberto 

06/22/20 12 

06/26/20121 —____________ 
2201 42383 Learmond, Latoya Krystle 06/26/2012 

41776 
1 

Graber, Arthur 06/27/2012 

2201 39151 

2201j 42390 
2201 39730 

Alegre,JessicaRia 
Pabst,Steven John 

Sherwin, Laura Marie 

07/09/2012 T 

07/17/2012 

2201 36447 Aher, Vivekanand Yashwant 07/25/2012 

2201 38093 Okaro, Obinna Nwabunwanne 07/31/2012 

2201 40497 Benjamin, Phaneze 07/31/2012 

2201 42268 Adeniye, Adesola Oluwayemisi 07/31/2012 

2201 07/31/2012 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 08/13/2012 

2201 

2201 

2201 39869 Toney, Colleen Marie 

2201 40819 
] 

Shaker, Marlene Kerolos — 
2201 42498 Au, Yilam 

08/28/2012 
09/04/2012 
09/05/2012 

2201 42557 O'Donnell, Kathleen Mary 09/05/2012 

2201 42559 Adebiyi, Abosede Mojisola 09/07/2012 1 

2201 42601 Cunliffe, Thomas Edward 09/13/2012 

2201 41480 Wandler, Judith Ann 09/17/2012 

2201 42431 Gastaldo, Matthew Michael 09/18/2012 
I 

2201 42460 Meador, Joshua Mark 09/18/2012 
2201 41099 Adu Siaw, Angela Naa Korkoi 09/21/2012 

2201 41393 Nguyen, Ngoctuyen Than 09/21/2012 

2201 40396 Abdullah Ibrahim 09/27/2012 

2201 

2201 

41518 
42441 

Wolner, ChanteUe Marie Beliste 

Froendhoff, Karen Ann 10/04/2012 

2201 42643 Sitner-Medredovsky, Gabriella llona 10/04/2012 

2201 42637 Tran,Andrew 10/05/2012 

2201 42478 Vo, Thuy-Linh Thi 10/09/2012 

2201 42569 Roberts, Drew Stephen 10/09/2012 

2201 37983 Abellard,Jean Roland 10/11/2012 

2201 39313 Roberts, Yolarida April 10/11/2012 

2201 39428 Marcelin, Anthony 10/11/2012 

2201 

2201 

41563 

142579 
I Pham, Hoanghai Huy 

Braden 

10/11/2012 
10/11/2012 

[ 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 



Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MQA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 20 of 30 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL tJSE ONLY — pkg_rpt_app.p_dxaSl9:09/1212013 10:05:42 

2201 

2201 

41171 

40843 
Certo,Stephen Paul 10/15/2012 

Harland, Clifford Allen Jr 

2201 42666 Hernandez, Daniel 1__10/19/2012 

2201 42667 Morales, Jorge Luis 10/19/2012 

2201 39730 Sherwin, Laura Marie 10/22/2012 

42634 Kumsaitong, Soranarom Belle 10/22/2012 - 

2201 42266 Faltaoos, John Kamel Habeb 10/24/2012 

2201 42451 Rosenberger, Melissa Hill 10/24/2012 

2201 42464 Stabley, Amber Alicia 10/24/2012 

2201 42506 Byron, Constance Louise 10/26/2012 

2201 36230 Thomas, Kori Latay 10/29/2012 

2201 39686 Hsu, Chan-Chien 10/29/2012 

2201 42660 Truong, Peter 
Morales-Ramirez, Jessica Grisselle 

10/29/2012 

2201 42683 10/29/2012 

2201 42662 Douglas, Katie_Nicole 11/02/2012 

2201 42461 Lindsay,_Marjorie Lynne 11/06/2012 

2201 42566 Feeney, Charles Patrick 11/06/2012 

2201 42645 Khan, Shazad Ahmed 11/06/2012 

2201 42673 JSoni, Vipul Jagdishchandra 11/06/2012 

2201 41171 Certo,Stephen Paul 11/08/2012 

2201 39419 Awadalla, Michael 11/13/2012 

2201 40968 Johnson, Jeremie Thomas 11/13/2012 

2201 42505 Lindsay,Joshua Lee 11/13/2012 

2201 38556 Issa Ossais, Carimi Marina 11/14/2012 I 

2201 40943 Campbell,_Brad Ernest 11/16/2012 

2201 38385 Rodriguez Manrique, Rafael 
Antonio 

11/27/2012 

2201 42628 Madasu, Madhavi 11/28/2012 

2201 32566 Edmons,Thomas Lee 11/29/2012 

2201 42702 lonan, Elena 
L 

11/30/2012 

2201 42686 Alhamzawi,_Khaled 12/03/2012 

2201 42430 Wheeler, Cheryl Ann 12/05/2012 

2201 42722 Mann, Julie Ivette 12/05/2012 1 

2201 41231 Perez, Maite Enid 12/07/2012 

2201 42737 Mankaryous, Nancy 12/13/2012 

2201 41318 Fanou,NisaEkarohita 12/17/2012 1 

2201 38265 Tameze,AugusteAouanang 12/18/2012 

2201 42697 Sloban, Stuart Alan 12/19/2012 

2201 42724 Sokale, Olubusola TitHope 12/19/2012 

2201 42734 Nashed, Nadine Adel 12/20/2012 

2201 42749 Arce Bulted, Osmarily 12/20/2012 

2201 42739 Henry, Velma Ellen 12/26/2012 

2201 42765 Baker, Nichole Renee 12/27/2012 1 

2201 

2201 

42718 
42787 

Feder, Gail Debra 

Antoun, Christina Youssny 

01/03/2013 
01/03/2013 



Division of COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Medical Quality Assurance 

Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

I\../t September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM Page 21 of 30 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 42009 Distefano, Janet A 01/09/2013 

2201 41508 Zayas-Reyes, Mayra Enid 01/16/2013 
I 2201 42405 Day, Derrick Dustin 01/16/2013 

2201 42778 Uddin, Erum Ghayas 01/17/2013 

2201 42682 Mansfield, Brian Peter 01/23/2013 —_________ 

2201 40997 Kotecha, Palak 01/24/2013 

2201 42803 Graumenz, Mitchell Lee 01/24/2013 

2201 42806 Patel, Archita Niranjan 01/24/2013 

2201 42773 Pantelakis, Maria T 01/25/2013 

2201 41003 Eugene, Christina Marie Louise 01/28/2013 

2201 41368 Colon-Ocasio, Magaly 01/29/2013 

2201 42301 Salami, Shadi 01/30/2013 

2201 41231 Perez, Maite Enid 02/05/2013 
1 

2201 42775 Abinanti, Joseph Thomas 02/05/2013 

2201 42797 
2201 31071 

2201 42829 

Udthn,Shahana_Naseer 
Kanaparthy, Manjula 

Van Bogaert, Bret Charles 

1 
02/08/2013 
02/08/2013 

2201 1 42807 j 
2201 41491 j 

Zaky, Myriam Magdy 
Williams, Cheryl 

02/13/2013 
02/18/2013 1 

2201 42791 Jennifer Renee 
Patel, Hinaben Hetalkumar 

02/18/2013 —__________ 

2201 39376 02/22/2013 

2201 39426 Tamika Renee 

Komandur, Sushma 02/22/2013 

2201 02/22/2013 

2201 

2201 

2201 03/04/2013 

2201 03/04/2013 

2201 

2201 

2201 
2201 

2201 03/08/2013 

2201 

2201 

2201 03/13/2013 

2201 

2201 

2201 03/18/2013 

2201 

2201 

2201 

2201 03/22/2013 

2201 03/22/2013 

2201 03/22/2013 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l 9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 





COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 23 of 30 

Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MOA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

05/17/20131 
Bhuiyan,_Navela 05/17/2013 

2201 42972 Patel, Jaymish Navinchandra 05/20/2013 

2201 43299 Kim,JiYeon 05/20/2013 

2201 43317 Robertson, Kristie Marie 05/20/2013 

2201 43324 Tran, Long Thuan 05/20/2013 

2201 43331 Ferry, Matthew Kyle 05/20/2013 

2201 43332 Kolta, Nancy Edward 05/22/2013 

2201 43358 Pham, Julie Ngoc 05/22/2013 

2201 43378 Cales, Scott Gary 05/23/2013 

2201 43385 I 
Mckinnon, TaShae Durrell 05/23/2013 

2201 43403 Kupferberg,_Ellen_Dara 05/23/2013 

2201 

2201 

42884 Henegar, Mark Brandon 

42930 Truong,BobbyJ 

05/24/2013 
05/24/2013 

2201 42942 Manfredi, Lorraine Ann 05/24/2013 

2201 42946 Kovacs, James Allen 05/24/2013 

2201 43041 Quirk, Fatmeh 05/24/2013 

2201 

2201 

43046 Mcgrath, Bobbi Jo 05/24/2013 

43234 Jhobalia, Neel Sunhl 05/24/2013 

2201 43408 Emekekwue, Linda Ujunwa 05/24/2013 

2201 43413 Rouhani, Au 05/24/2013 

2201 43418 Patel, Natasha 05/24/2013 

2201 43417 Martinez, Miteisy 05/28/2013 

2201 
L 

Rook, Alan Olsen 05/28/2013 

2201 43437 Persaud, Robert Anthony 05/28/2013 

2201 

2201 

2201 

43076 
43355 
43456 

Ngo, ChhstinaMui 
Reddie, Denique Crysta-Gaye 

05/29/2013 
05/29/2013 
05/29/2013 

2201 43476 Reed, Andrew Taylor 05/29/2013 

2201 43488 Sdcka, Am it —_______ 05/29/2013 

2201 43470 Lipshutz, Andrew Marc 05/30/2013 

2201 37833 Roque,_Jacqueline 05/31/2013 

2201 42784 Varghese, Roy 05/31/2013 

05/31/2013 

2201 42944 Lipo, David Richard 05/31/2013 

2201 

42996 
43111 

Joy 

Frost, Kimberly Christine 05/31/2013 

2201 43278 Castex, Arielle Patrice 05/31/2013 

2201 43489 Raquipo, Jennifer Ann 05/31/2013 

2201 43509 Retcho, Kristina Marie 05/31/2013 

2201 43530 Tucker, Alan Patrick 05/31/2013 

2201 43531 Bastien, Roudelyne '05/31/2013 
2201 43532 Coltea, Gloria 05/31/2013 

2201 43534 

2201 42975 James, Edwin 06/03/2013 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa51909/12/20l3 10:05:42 



COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 

Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 
September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 24 of 30 

DIvisIon of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MOA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 43051 Hale, Genevieve_Marie 06/03/2013 

T 2201 43080 Haas,_Adam Justin SandIer 06/03/2013 

2201 43601 Stoneking, Joshua_Samuel 

2201 33602 Chevere-Robles,_Katiria M 06/04/2013 

2201 43222 Nguyen, Vinh Xuan 06/04/2013 

2201 43545 I 
Simpson, Nadya_Natasha 06/04/2013 

2201 

2201 

2201 

43549 Phelan, George Raymond lv 06/04/2013 

43563 Hernandez,VivianD 06/04/20131 

43592 Landeta, Lauren 06/04/2013 

2201 42890 

2201 43465 

2201 43565 

Bottoms James Franklin 06/05/2013 

Francois, Jean Dominique 

Nguyen, Mai 06/05/2013 

2201 43566 Ulysse, Shasly 06/05/2013 

2201 43593 Nguyen, Ryan Tan 06/05/2013 

2201 

2201 

43597 
43604 

Allen, Travis Lawrence 

Castor, Veronese 

06/05/2013 
06/05/2013 1 

2201 

I 2201 

43606 

43619 

Patel, Megha Ashvinrumar 

Joseph LornekaShavell 
Hallmon, Nasiya Denise 

06/05/2013 

06/05/2013 

06/05/2013 

2201 43633 Weatherington, Erika Denise 06/05/2013 

2201 43636 Coke,_ShelIy-Ann Tiffany 06/05/2013 

2201 43642 Donlow, Latricia_Yvonne 06/05/2013 

2201 43648 Ngo, KietAnh 06/05/2013 

2201 43649 Jean-Simon, Tricy Merlande 06/05/2013 

2201 39241 Thaudboina, Venkateshwarlu 06/06/2013 
' 2201 

2201 

43615 
42642 

Schultz, Michael Gregory 

Burgess, Leslie Jean 

06/06/2013 t 4 
2201 

2201 43062 

Mary 

llkevitch, Alma 

06/07/2013 
06/07/2013 

—____ 

2201 43339 Camacho, Felipe 

Delgado, Samantha Anne 

Nada, Lilyan 

06/07/2013 

2201 43500 06/07/2013 

2201 43653 06/07/2013 

2201 38260 Gandhi, Ruchika 06/11/2013 

2201 43529 Williams, Candra Jameka 06/11/2013 

2201 43659 

2201443696 

2201 43708 

Walker,_Emilio Nathanien 

Awad, Marina Youssef 

Yang, Jessie Shu 

06/12/2013 

06/12/2013t 
06/12/2013 

1 

06/12/2013 

2201 43716 Shah, Venus Ashwin 

2201 43315 Gerena-Carrillo, Eniliz Eileen 

06/12/2013 

1 06/13/2013 

2201 43348 Syed,Ayesha 06/13/2013 

2201 43395 Manduca, Arlyn 06/13/2013 

2201 43681 Maxwell, Abigail Leigh 06/13/2013 

2201 43711 Ramsaroop, Marisa Ann 06/13/2013 

2201 43723 Kohane, 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 



Division of 
Medical Qualify Assurance 

Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 25 of 30 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 43724 Nguyen,VyNinaDuy 06/13/2013 

2201 43734 Nguyen, Trang Ngoc 06/13/2013 

2201 43740 Popp, Shannon Kathleen 06/13/2013 

2201 43743 Vo,LoanAnhThi 06/13/2013 

2201 43747 Le, Trang Bao Huynh 06/13/2013 

2201 43757 Kheireddine, Sunny Rockhill 06/13/2013 

2201 42993 Horn, Robin Ruth 06/14/2013 1 

2201 43070 Jimenez, Barbara Charis 06/14/2013 

2201 1 

2201; 

43168 
- 43204 

Doan,_Binh Hoa 

Ragoonathsingh, Faria Anika 
Temples,John Frederick 
Soto Aybar, Marilys 

06/14/2013 
06/14/2013 -_________________________ 

43360 06/14/20131 
43419 06/14/20 

2201 f 43446 Park, Pauline 06/14/2013 
iAdvarez, Cristina Isabel 06/14/2013 

2201 43768 Almarizar Paredes, Anarelis 06/14/2013 

2201 43769 Enos,Merin Elsa 

Barton, Penny Ruth 

06/14/2013 

2201 41974 06/17/2013 

2201 42601 Cunliffe, Thomas Edward 06/17/2013 

2201 43675 Terala, Soumya 06/17/2013 

2201 43751 Woods, Jessica Lynne 06/17/2013 

2201 43760 Farag, Georgina Victor 06/17/2013 

2201 43770 Alexander, Mi'Chelle Juanita_____ 06/17/2013 

2201 43774 Duncan, Jamie Shirlene 06/17/2013 

2201 43776 Jannu, Smruthi 06/17/2013 

2201 43779 Lu, Yueh-Hsun 06/17/2013 

2201 43783 RodnguezGomez,_EdefrniroM 06/17/2013 

2201 43784 Emmanuelli, Giselle 06/17/2013 

2201 43786 George, Ashlynn Autumn 06/17/2013 

2201 43793 Moskovits, Jessica Sara 06/17/2013 

2201 43794 Walters, Adam Lee 06/17/2013 

2201 43778 Iran, Nhu Mai Thi 06/18/2013 
43762 

2201 43795 
Johnson, Natalie Dianne 
Soles, Lauren Dominique 

06/18/2013 
06/19/2013 

--___________________ 

2201 43801 Gutierrez, Carlos David 06/19/2013 

2201 43802 Beasley, Ronald Anthony 06/19/2013 

2201 43837 Kim, Ju Hyeun 06/19/2013 

2201 39306 Collazo-Gerena, Monica 06/20/2013 

2201 43570 Tran, Luong Hoang 06/20/2013 

2201 43627 Rosa I 06/20/2013 

2201 43698 Ogden, Lauren Elizabeth 06/20/2013 

2201 43820 Barragan, Monica Inneb 06/20/2013 

2201 43822 Salibi, Julie 06/20/2013 

2201 42121 Masoud, Monika 06/21/2013 

06/21/2013 2201 43831 Villarreal, Jimmy Ryan 

2201 43839 Mayoz, Jessica Ann 06/21/2013 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 





Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 27 of 30 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:09/12/2013 10:05:42 

2201 39894 Garces, Idalmis Catalina 07/11/2013 
2201 43970 Sully, Michael 07/11/2013 

2201 42901 Ray, David William 07/12/2013 
2201 43943 Bell, Amanda Marie 07/12/2013 

2201 43975 Abraham, Peter 07/12/2013 
2201 - 43981 Brooks, Gabriel Andrew 07/15/2013 

2201 

2201 

43983 
43990 

Luu,TuanMinh 
Lange, Raquel Maria 

07/15/2013 
07/15/2013 

2201 43996 Vickers, Lee Tramell 07/15/2013 
2201 44000 Vaddi, Haranath Kumar 07/16/2013 
2201 42861 Fout, Amanda Elaine 07/17/2013 
2201 43826 Joshi, Gargi G 07/17/2013 
2201 43833 Macdonald, Adam Joseph 07/17/2013 

2201 43912 Abraham, Blessy Mary 07/17/2013 
2201 43958 ONeel, Cory Dean 07/17/2013 
2201 42929 Alvarez Villavicencio, Yarelis 07/18/2013 
2201 43170 Bollaert, Sara Elizabeth 07/18/2013 
2201 43579 Rivers, Gayle Latisha 07/19/2013 
2201 44004 Abaza,_Noha 07/19/2013 
2201 34374 Khamissizadeh, Farhad 07/22/2013 

2201 42710 Cruzado, Juan R 07/22/2013 
2201 43856 Hankel,JeffreyS 07/22/2013 

2201 43857 Hankel, Catherine A 07/22/2013 
2201 43902 Alfonso Hernandez, Danay 07/22/2013 

1 

2201 44008 Munoz Robledo, Lyn Gabriel 07/22/2013 

2201 44009 Frank, Damien Anthony 
22011 44011 Quinones, Leilani C 

2201 43829 Jennings, Heath Randel 

07/22/2013 j 
07/22/2013 
07/23/2013 

2201 44016 Rollins, Kandice Natasha 07/23/2013 
2201 44017 MohamadAwad,Jalal 07/23/2013 
2201 44018 Farid, Marina Mohsen 07/23/2013 

07/25/2013 

2201 44024 

22011 44046 
2201 43527 
2201 44027 

Nieves Ortiz, Waldemar Julio 

Betanco, Linda ldarela 

07/26/2013 

07/26/2013 
Ng Wong, Shuk Ling 

Guzman, Mayra Iveth 

07/29/2013 
07/29/2013 

2201 43683 1 Bradley, Gregory 07/30/2013 

2201 43689 Nunez Roman, Yesenia 07/30/2013 
2201 43764 Gandelman, Yana 07/30/2013 
2201 43780 Chittle, Dennis James 07/30/2013 
2201 43971 Patel,_Nitinkumar_Parshotambhai 07/30/2013 

2201 41322 Yambao,RosedAquino 07/31/2013 

2201 43994 Jagasia, Kunal K 07/31/2013 

2201 44030 Zell, Amanda Elyse 07/31/2013 
2201 41388 lbrahim,Inian Fathy 08/01/2013 



DMsIon of COMPAS DataMart Reporting System Medical Quality Assurance 

Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 
September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Processed: 9/12/20 13 10:06:31AM Page 28 of 30 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

2201 43732 
43737 

2201 43745 

Hettinger, Claire Abelardo 
Patel, KalpeshkumarHimrnatbhai 

08/01/2013 
08/01/2013 

Youssef,JohnGamalAmin 08/01/2013 
2201 44032 Cuevas, Mary Jane Sales 08/01/2013 
2201 44033 Lai, Deborah Yan 08/01/2013 
2201 44034 08/01/2013 
2201 44035 Williamson, Jerome Patrick 

— 

08/01/2013 
2201 44036 Jerry, Quaneshia Latoya 08/02/2013 
2201 44042 Smith-Benson, Joshua Francois 08/05/2013 
2201 44043 White, Kelly Michelle 08/05/2013 
2201 44044 Umar, Asmau A 08/05/2013 

1 2201 43843 Smith, Patria Shiree 08/06/2013 
2201 44029 Kocher, Keith Noel 08/06/2013 
2201 42638 Patel, Vaishali Manubhai 08/07/2013 
2201 42937 Dittus, Krystal Star 08/07/2013 1 

2201 43914 Settle, Janet Michelle 08/07/2013 
2201 43959 Mangino, Michael Paul 08/07/2013 
2201 44053 Jennings, Douglas Lee 08/07/2013 
2201 42899 , Holt, Gretchen Marie 08/08/2013 
2201 43567 Anderson, Kimberly Erin 08/08/2013 
2201 44054 Diaz-Latorre, Edgardo L 08/08/2013 
2201 44055 Byard, Alan Richard 08/08/2013 
2201 44056 Dance, Richard Nathaniel 08/08/2013 
2201 36268 Davis, Vanessa Denise 08/09/2013 
2201 

2201 

42977 
44062 

Teconchuk-Yount,AmyLynne 
Rivera, Edgar_____________ 

08/09/2013 
08/09/2013 

2201 44063 Bacon, David Jr 08/09/2013 
2201 44064 Paup,Jeffrey Eugene 08/09/2013 
2201 38093 Okaro, Obinna Nwabunwanne 08/12/2013 
2201 43984 Ghogomu, Jinwi Tapisi 08/12/2013 
2201 44059 Bhukhan, Shilpesh B 08/12/2013 
2201 44067 Galician, Korey Matthew 08/12/2013 
2201 43016 Otto, JenniferA 08/13/2013 
2201 43942 Kwon, Jessica B 08/13/2013 
2201 43960 Norman, Darby Reynolds 08/13/2013 
2201 43986 Schrenk, Regina Anne 08/13/2013 
2201 44028 Spears, Eric Stephen 08/13/2013 
2201 44047 Abbasi, Ghalib Adel 08/13/2013 
2201 

2201 

44049 Lee, Medina 08/13/2013 
44051 Wallace, Marquita Terrieka 08/13/2013 

2201 43937 Mani,ReebaE 08/14/2013 I 

2201 44072 Murphy, Hanna V 08/14/2013 
2201 44073 Rezkallah, Nada Nagy 08/14/2013 

2201 44050 Anam,Areeba 08/15/2013 
2201 44075 Patrick Joseph 08/15/2013 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa519:09/12/2013 10:05:42 



COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 29 of 30 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- 013 10:05:42 

Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MOA 
Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 
2201 41146 HernandezArnaldy, Christie Marie 08/16/2013 
2201 43573 Tiitto, Markus yule 08/16/2013 
2201 43580 Sosa, Louis P 08/16/2013 
2201 42939 Canada, Natalie Plummer 08/20/2013 
2201 43772 Gowler, Aimee Joy 08/20/2013 

2201 
43972 
43974 

Villegas-Medina, Nivia Griselle 
Barrett, Jill Williamson 

08/21/2013 
08/21/2013 

2201 44089 Rener, Timothy J 08/21/2013 
2201 42992 Garcia Vazquez, Maria Magdalena 08/22/2013 

1 2201 44093 Lebron,_Carolina 08/22/2013 
2201 44094 Pham,Anjulie 08/22/2013 
2201 

2201 
44095 
44104 

Ezepue, Julius Chukwugekwu 
Guess, Charles Jordan 

08/22/2013 
08/22/2013 

2201 
2201 

43872 
43909 

Mikhail, Diana 

ErshadLMahroM 
08/23/2013 
08/23/2013 
08/23/2013 2201 44060 Zoellner,_Michelle Elise 

2201 36447 Aher, Vivekanand Yashwant 08/26/2013 lj 37788 Azzolin, Michael Tate 08/26/2013 
1 2201 43669 Hire, Ryan Richard 08/26/2013 

2201 44025 Gurbuz, Mujgan 08/26/2013 
2201 43928 Major,John Stephen 08/27/2013 
2201 44019 West, Jason Bruce 08/27/2013 
2201 44109 Hall, Meticia Michelle 08/27/2013 

2201 08/27/2013 
2201 08/27/2013 
2201 08/27/2013 
2201 

2201 

2201 T 08/29/2013 
2201 
2201 

2201 44132 Muniz-Ramos, Franchesca 08/30/2013 
44133 Le, Phuoc Huy 08/30/2013 —________ 

2201 42084 Abanah, Prisca Obiamaka 09/05/2013 
2201 43612 Lance, James Earl 09/05/2013 
2201 44121 Wolbrink, Christopher Steven 09/06/2013 
2201 44141 Green, Amy Ruth 09/06/2013 
2201 44088 Bloom,_Timothy Douglas 09/09/2013 
2201 44082 Patel, Rupal 09/10/2013 
2201 44103 Williams, Brent Austin 09/10/2013 
2201 44108 Aquino, Lizbet 09/10/2013 
2201 44129 Nayak,AnkurMahesh 09/11/2013 
2201 43987 Brodlieb, Rebecca Jane 09/12/2013 



lQualfly Assurance COMPAS JJataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Testing of 2201 : Pharmacist 

September 12, 2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Processed: 9/12/2013 10:06:31AM Page 30 of 30 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

Total Number of Eligible Applications: 1,298 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY-- 12/2013 10:05:42 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualify A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:20:56A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 
1 of8 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

B
irth D

ate 

30984 

30985 

30986 

30987 

P
S

I 
30983 

07/01/2013 
T

uttle, K
athy M

arie 
12/1 7/1 987 

07/02/2013 

07/08/2013 

07/08/2013 

07/08/2013 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

20 H
am

ilton A
ve. 

P
L Location 

Joudeh, H
ania 

K
ruckeberg, E

m
ily 

Jane 
P

ucel, R
achel Janene 

M
ousa, C

hristine 
K

am
allabib 

B
rache H

ernandez, 
O

svaldo 
A

ndrew
s, K

im
berly 

M
arie 

S
chnackenberg 

M
ichael Jonathan 

S
alam

a, R
am

y 

B
arrett, B

randon Leon 

D
ay, K

evin 
C

hristopher 

11/09/1974 

12/1 2/1 989 

02/14/1990 
10/20/1981 

02/28/1 978 

04/18/1985 

06/29/1989 

04/07/1984 

04/23/1985 

11/04/1990 

W
heeling, W

V
 

26003 

403 P
ort R

oyal W
ay 

1000 36T
h S

t 

820 G
rande D

r. 

1527 S
tarlight C

ove 

2730 N
w

 99 S
t 

11897 A
rcher H

ill R
oad 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32502 

V
ero B

each, F
L 

32960 

M
inooka, IL 60447 

T
arpon S

prings, F
L 

34689 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33147 

R
andolph, N

Y
 

14772 

30988 
07/11/2013 

P
S

I 
30990 

07/11/2013 

P
S

I 
J 

P
S

I 

S
 

30991 
07/11/2013 

30992 

30993' 
07/12/2013 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

[ 
- 

30995 
07/15/2013 

30996 
07/16/2013 

P
S

I 
30997 

07/17/2013 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

30998 

30999 

07/17/2013 

07/17/2013 

P
S

I 
31000 

07/18/2013 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

31002J 
07/23/2013 

310031 
07/23/2013 

C
heslek, M

ichelle Lee 

O
lberding, T

iffany 
Lynn 
D

ing, Jennifer 
Lopez A

lm
inaque, 

C
laudia R

osa 

Joseph, R
aum

i E
zzat 

H
edrick, Z

achary 
A

dam
 

A
costa D

om
iriguez, 

M
aria E

ugenia 
H

ayes, K
ristine 

G
abrielle 

M
iklich, M

argaret A
nn 

K
lefeker, A

lexis 
E

laine 

09/24/1985 

07/07/1990 

07/03/1990 

08/18/1979 

10/02/1979 

08/31/1989 

01/20/1975 

06/22/1990 

01 /1 3/1 988 

06/16/1989 

5430 S
e 28T

h S
treet 

D
es M

oines, 
IA

 
50320 

219S
4T

hLnS
W

 
V

eroB
each,F

L 
32962 

983 H
arborview

 R
oad 

C
harleston, S

C
 

29412 

3841 P
ow

ner R
oad 

C
incinnati, O

H
 

45248 

301 
N

. M
ain S

t 
S

um
m

erville, S
C

 
29483 

104 S
 F

ranktort S
t 

M
inster, O

H
 

45865 

1026 M
esa D

r. 
P

eoria, IL 61607 

6105 S
w

 129T
h P

lace U
niti 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33183 
1807 

t26 P
ortland S

treet A
pt 207r W

orcester, M
A

 
01608 

17176 G
lynw

ood N
ew

 
W

apakoneta, O
H

 
45895 

K
noxville R

d 

3020 S
. C

om
bee R

d. 
Lakeland, F

L 33803 

32 G
len Laurel D

r. 
S

aint Johns, F
L 

32259 

402W
 P

laza D
r 

C
olum

bia C
ity, 

IN
 

46725 

123 Lake S
uran D

rive 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33411 

3679 E
verhope R

d 
M

ount P
leasant, 

S
C

 
29466 

1000 D
uluth H

w
y A

pt 206 
Law

renceville, G
A

 
30043 

pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11:20:02 
O

N
D

 

P
S

I 
31004 

07/23/2013 

31006107/23/2013 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 

A
m

in, M
ina A

m
in 

H
alim

 

M
orrisette, 

M
atthew

 
Joseph 

F
isher, M

arion 

03/15/1987 

11/12/1986 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:20:56A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 2 of 8 

S
m

oody, D
erek 

Joseph 

A
hm

ed, K
arim

 K
am

el 
Ibrahim

 

N
orth V

ersailles, P
A

 
15137 

Long Island C
ity, N

Y
 

11101 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxI5 15:09/12/2013 

11 :20:02 
O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

I 
31007 

07/23/2013 
E

l-B
anna, M

ary 
M

aged 
02/21/1 987 

1904 E
m

m
ett S

treet 
C

harlottesville, V
A

 
22901 

P
S

I 
31008 

07/24/2013 
B

rannock, Justine 
Janette 

06/19/1990 
100 O

ld C
herokee R

d. 
Lexington, S

C
 

29072 

P
S

I 
31009 

07/25/2013 
T

hekkedam
, Jose 

John 
06/11/1977 

2450 
N

.J O
range B

lossom
 

T
rail 

K
issim

m
ee, 

F
L 

34744 

P
S

I 
31010 

07/25/2013 
P

ierce, Jessica M
arie 

09/07/1989 
179 P

elican W
ay 

P
anam

a C
ity, F

L 
32408 

P
S

I 
31011 

07/25/2013 
H

ichez, D
eidry 

P
atrick 

07/25/2013 
T

akla, M
ohab 

08/02/1971 
10720 S

w
72 S

t 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 

33173 

P
S

I 
31013 

P
S

I 
31014 

43659 C
orte D

eloro 

123 S
turgess A

venue 

-_______ 
La Q

uinta, C
A

 
92253 

06/26/1979 

01/29/1 976 
- 

07/25/2013 
F

am
uboni, A

deola 
Y

ew
ande 

P
S

I 
31015 

07/26/2013 
S

alam
a, Lilian A

del 
N

aguib 
01/12/1988 

240 N
andina T

errace 
W

inter S
prings, F

L 
32708 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

31016 
07/26/2013 

W
est, M

isty Lee 
03/31/1 975 

122 W
c B

ryant P
arkw

ay 
C

alhoun, G
A

 
30701 

31017 
07/26/2013 

O
h, Jin S

eung 
01/11/1974 

3340 S
w

 27T
h S

t. 

1418 M
ichigan D

r 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33133 

Lake W
orth, F

L 
33461 

O
rlando, F

L 
32811 

F
argo, N

D
 

58103 

P
S

i 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

31018 
07/26/2013 

B
ancroft-Lavin, 

Y
elaine 

07/10/1970 

31019 

31020 

07/26/2013 
P

earson, B
ethany 

05/10/1990 

12/30/1 987 

I -—
- 

4121 
S

w
 34T

h S
t 

55540 S
t S

 A
pt 123 

07/26/2013 
M

elroe, C
orey S

cott 

P
S

I 
31021 

07/29/2013 
D

iaz-Latorre, E
dgardo 

L 

03/18/1985 
3242 A

biaka D
r 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34743 

P
S

I 
31022 

07/30/2013 
M

aykel, P
erez 

11/22/1979 

- 

1119 S
w

 139T
h P

lace 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33184 

31023 

- 

31025 

31026 

07/30/2013 
E

llis, Jennifer M
onsod 

08/01/1977 

- 

7840 S
onom

a S
prings 

Lake W
orth, F

L 
33463 

T
am

pa,F
L 

33617 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

07/06/1 987 
j 

6285E
astFow

ierA
ve 

08/06/2013 

08/06/2013 

Jones, K
ayla A

shley 

Janovsky, K
ayla Jean 

3700 W
hispering P

ines 
R

dA
pt47D

 
M

obile, A
L 

36608 

07/14/1988 
175 F

erum
 D

r 
C

olum
bia, S

C
 29229 

P
S

I 
31027 

08/06/2013 
S

onchaiw
anich, 

S
uvim

ol 
11/26/1980 

550 P
eachtree S

t 
A

tlanta, G
A

 
30308 

P
S

I 
31028 

08/06/2013 

P
S

I 
31029 

08/06/2013 

06/24/1989 

06/26/1986 

1901 Lincoln H
w

y 

2403 41S
t A

ve A
partm

ent 
15 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:20:56A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

a rt R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist intern 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 3 of8 

M
orkos, M

agdy 
07/01/1976 

F
arouk 

P
atel, S

arjuben 
01/14/1987 

G
ovindbhai 

Lam
bert, C

andler 
B

rooke 

T
rust P

harm
acy 

P
alm

 H
arbor, F

L 
34684 

640 C
elebration C

t 
S

an Jose, C
A

 95134 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, 
24708 

33416 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11:20:02 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

I 
31030 

08/06/2013 
A

nstine, Joshua 
M

ichael 
11/17/1988 

12080 G
erm

an C
hurch S

t 
A

lliance, O
H

 
44601 

P
S

I 
31031 

08/07/2013 
C

outts, E
lizabeth 

A
lice 

07/26/1 989 
205 S

pring W
ood C

t 
N

orth A
ugusta, S

C
 

29841 

P
S

I 
31032 

08/07/2013 
F

iorenza, M
allory A

nn 
09/20/1987 

2776 C
leveland A

ve. 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33901 

P
S

I 
31033 

08/08/2013 
M

asiarczyk, B
liss 

M
arie 

10/28/1 983 
409 G

race H
ills D

rive 
B

lountville, T
N

 
37617 

P
S

I 

PSI 

P
S

I 

31034 

31035 

08/08/2013 

08/08/2013 

T
sirogiannis, K

aliope 
08/14/1983 

05/07/1 989 

12028 M
ajestic B

lvd 

3077 B
rookhill D

rive 

H
udson, F

L 
34667 

B
irm

ingham
, A

L 
35242 

W
alsh, D

alton R
eid 

31036 
08/12/2013 

S
ookhan, V

inesh 
A

rkash 
04/20/1985 

100 U
nion D

rive 
A

lbany, N
Y

 
12208 

P
S

I 
31037 

08/12/2013 
S

ookhan, T
rang T

hi 
T

hu H
uynh 

08/06/1 986 
100 U

nion D
rive 

A
lbany, N

Y
 

12208 

P
S

I 
31038 

08/12/2013 
M

eyers, Jessica Lynn 
07/27/1990 

E
lm

 A
nd C

arlton 
B

uffalo, N
Y

 
14263 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

31039 
08/13/2013 

F
ernandez E

loy, 
R

osa B
eatriz 

07/04/1 969 
C

om
fort P

harm
acy 

31040 
08/13/2013 

W
eekley, Justin R

eid 
05/26/1989 

1114 M
ohaw

k S
t U

nit H
2 

S
avannah, G

A
 

31419 

P
S

I 
31041 

08/13/2013 
B

reeden, Joshua 
M

ichael 
12/11/1988 

134 S
usina D

r. 
Leesburg, G

A
 

31763 

P
S

I 
31042 

08/13/2013 
K

am
el, T

am
er T

alaat 
F

akhry 
01/1 0/1 973 

2882 W
illow

 B
ay T

errace 
C

asselberry, F
L 

32707 

P
S

I 
31043 

08/14/2013 
D

e V
era, K

atherine 
B

rezina 
09/16/1982 

12454 S
w

 125 T
errace 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33186 

P
S

I 
31044 

08/15/2013 
A

saad, S
ylvia S

am
ir 

S
hehala 

11/04/1975 
2882 W

illow
 B

ay T
errace 

C
asselberry, F

L 
32707 

P
S

I 
31045 

08/16/2013 
V

ita H
ernandez, T

anit 
09/23/1973 

14347 S
w

 62N
d S

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33183 

P
S

I 
31046 

08/20/2013 
B

alI, Jasm
in M

aria 
04/20/1 990 

505 M
aIl B

lvd A
pt #605 

S
avannah, G

A
 

31406 

P
S

I 
31047 

08/21/2013 
Littlefleld, A

udrey 
Jane 

08/03/1990 
6J T

alcott F
orest R

d 
F

arm
ington, I 

06032 

P
S

I 
31048 

08/21/2013 
P

atel, N
ishm

a 
05/20/1989 

1000 P
eachtree Industrial 

B
lvd 

S
uw

anee, G
A

 30024 

P
S

I 
31049 

08/21/2013 

P
S

I 
31050 

08/21/2013 

P
S

I 
31051 

08/26/2013 
11 /b2/i 980 



D
ivision of 

M
edical G

ualify A
ssuronce 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:20:56A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 4 of 8 

M
ezentsef, A

nd rea 
C

hristine 

M
ijares, Jennifer 

B
irth D

ate 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

1901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
1515:09/12/2013 11:20:02 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 
P

S
I 

31052 
08/26/2013 

Lee, T
ina C

oleen 
02/29/1 972 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
I 33416 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

31053 
08/26/2013 

Jones, S
tephanie 

N
icole 

03/08/1 994 
901 

S
. F

lagler D
rive 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
31054 

08/26/2013 
Lew

is, T
ristin Leigh 

03/14/1989 

L 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33416 

P
S

I 
31055 

08/26/2013 
Luinord, S

ofonie 
04/13/1990 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33416 

P
S

I 
31056 

08/26/2013 
Lin, X

iaoY
an 

10/25/1990 
901 

S
. F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
P

S
I 

31057 
08/26/2013 

M
elIa, Lisa C

arm
en 

03/11/1991 
901 

S
. F

lagler D
rhie B

ox 
24708 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
P

S
I 

31058 
08/26/2013 

T
or, Larry M

ey 
08/29/1987 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, 
F

L 
33416 

P
S

I 
31059 

08/26/2013 
M

cleary, T
anice 

M
efissa 

S
oule, A

m
anda M

ary 

01/02/1 989 

09/0611989 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

24708 P
alm

 
B

each 
33416 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

31060 
08/26/2013 

31061 
I 

08/26/2013 
M

cintyre, K
ayla 

M
onique 

12/24/1 990 
901 

S
. F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
P

S
I 

P
S

I 

31062 

31063 

08/26/2013 
W

atchek, S
arah 

M
arie 

05/07/1 989 

. 07/21/1 988 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 B
each 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

08/26/2013 
M

enzel, D
avid 

A
ndrew

 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33416 

P
S

I 
31064 

08/26/2013 
W

ahba, B
eshoi 

A
shraf 

08/23/1 991 
901 

S
 F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 P

alm
 B

each 
A

tlantic U
niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

P
S

I 
31065 

08/26/2013 
M

elton, C
harles 

P
atrick 

05/19/1985 
901 

S
. F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 
31066 

08/26/2013 
M

elIa, N
atalie M

arie 
03/11/1991 

31067 
08/26/2013 

P
S

I 
31068 

08/26/2013 
M
a
r
i
e
 

12/0 1/1 989 

08/03/1987 
901 

5. F
lagler D

r
i
v
e
 B

ox 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
24708 

33416 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:20:56A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 
5 of 8 

N
guyen-B

ui, Jam
es 

M
inh 

P
atel, P

ayal B
havan 

S
t Leger, S

andra 
M

arie 

Z
ecca, Joshua P

hilip 

W
illiam

s, Jam
es 

A
nthony 

W
illiam

s, A
nthony 

Jarreau 
W

ight, C
harles 

E
verett 

08/27/2013 
S

egovia, Jocelyn 

08/27/2013 
S

ieunarine, R
oxanne 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

21900 R
iver O

aks D
r 

- 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 
B

each 
A

tlantic U
niv. 

901 
S

 F
lag ler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

13270 S
ycam

ore A
ve 

15 B
rasseler B

lvd A
pt 

#K
38 

901 S
 F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 P

alm
 B

each 
A

tlantic U
niv. 

1901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 
B

each 
U

niv. 

901 
5 F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 
901 

S
 F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 P

alm
 B

each 
A

tlantic U
niv. 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

F
ergus F

alls, 
56537 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

a
l
m
 
B
e
a
c
h
,
 F
L
 

3
3
4
1
6
 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l5:09/12/2013 11:20:02 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

P
S

I 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 

31071 
08/26/2013 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
essa, K

urt H
unter 

P
S

I 
31072 

P
S

I 
31073 

P
S

I 
31069 

08/26/2013 
V

asquez, V
eena 

R
epique 

09/30/1 992 
901 

S
 F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 P

alm
 B

each 
A

tlantic U
niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

P
S

I 
31070 

08/26/2013 
P

arrish, S
hara Lynn 

11/26/1985 
901 

S
 F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 P

alm
 B

each 
A

tlantic U
niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

P
L A

ddress 

11/02/1985 

08/26/2013 

08/26/2013 

Laporte, K
yle John 

P
L Location 

M
im

s, N
atalie 

04/10/1989 

03/28/1983 

P
S

I 
31074 

08/26/2013 
N

guyen, T
ruong T

he 
I 04/02/1 984 

P
S
I
 

3
1
0
7
6
 

P
S

I 

08/26/2013 

31077 

12/29/1989 

P
S

I 

0
8
/
2
6
/
2
0
1
3
 

31078 
I 

08/27/2013 

10/30/1986 

P
S

I 

10/10/1980 

31079 
0
8
/
2
7
/
2
0
1
3
 

09/08/1980 

12/31/1 9
9
2
 

1
2
/
0
8
/
1
9
8
1
 

31081 
0
8
/
2
7
/
2
0
1
3
 

C
hino, C

A
 

91710 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 
31082 

P
S

I 
3
1
0
8
3
 

P
S
I
 

31084 

S
avannah, G

A
 

31419 

04/13/1990 

0
4
/
1
1
/
1
9
6
9
 

0
5
/
0
4
/
1
9
8
8
 

0
5
/
1
1
/
1
9
9
3
 



D
ivision or 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Page 6 of 8 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:20:56A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

I 
31085 

08/27/2013 
R

ichardson, Jonathan 
11/07/1988 

901 5. F
lagler D

rive 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 

P
S

I 
31086 

08/27/2013 
R

odriguez, N
aivys 

07/29/1 989 
901 

S
. F

lagler D
rive 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
P

S
I 

31087 
08/27/2013 

R
eonegro, E

m
ily 

R
ose 

04/17/1992 
901 

S
. F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
P

S
I 

31088 
08/27/2013 

Q
uach, H

ung T
in 

03/18/1 989 
901 

S
 F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 P

alm
 B

each 
A

tlantic U
niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

P
S

I 
31089 

P
S

I 
31090 

P
S

I 
31091 

P
S

I 
31092 

P
S

I 
31093 

08/27/2013 

08/27/2013 

08/27/2013 

R
em

ick, A
dam

 Jaye 
t09/08/1988 

R
etinskiy, V

eniam
in S

 
05/20/1992 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

901 
5. F

lagler D
rive 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33416 

S
antalo, O

scar 

08/27/2013 
A

lbanese, M
axw

ell 
01/01/1979 

105 O
range S

t 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

r 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive 

S
atellite B

each, F
L 

32937 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
08/27/2013 

F
reim

uth, Jocelyn 
M

arie 
08/1 2/1 991 

P
S

I 
31094 

08/27/2013 
G

abarda, S
harlynn 

M
ae D

u
r
a
n
 

05/12/1 990 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33416 
W
e
s
t
 P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 
1
 

31095 
08/27/2013 

G
eneus, K

enel 
09/11/1970 

31096 

31097 

08/27/2013 

08/27/2013 

G
erking, A

llison S
kye 

L G
onzalez-A

breu, 
P

atricia 

04/15/1993 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33416 

12/06/1 988 
901 

S
. F

lagler D
rive 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
P

S
I 

31098 
08/27/2013 

H
ernandez, D

avid 
Jose 

11/23/1976 
901 

S
. F

lagler D
rive 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33416 

P
S

I 
31099 

08/27/2013 
H

ill, K
ylene F

rances 
09/07/1 992 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive 

P
S

I 
31100 

08/27/2013 
H

uyrih-H
oa, D

iane 
901 

5. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

24708 
33416 

P
S

I 
31101 

08/27/2013 
K

uruppum
adom

, A
run 

04/04/1 991 
901 

5. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, 
F

L 
S

hajan 
24708 

33416 
P

S
I 

31102 
08/27/2013 

D
ealm

eida, K
risten E

 
08/13/1988 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

I 
24708 P

alm
 B

each 
33416 

I 
A

tlantic U
niv. 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dx1515:09/12/201 

3 11:20:02 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

M
edical 

A
ssurance 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:20:56A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 7 of 8 

B
ensin, A

m
anda 

E
lizabeth 

B
landon, A

ndrea 
K

arm
a 

B
lount, R

obert 
M

atthew
 

P
L A

ddress 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 
6852 A

m
herst D

r #2108 

P
L Location 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
N

orthfield, O
H

 44067 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33416 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
1515:09/12/2013 11:20:02 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 

P
S

I 
31103 

08/27/2013 
D

ela C
ruz, Joseph 

P
atrick R

obledo 
11/17/1989 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

P
S

I 
31104 

08/27/2013 
D

o, H
anh D

inh N
u 

T
hien 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

P
S

I 
31105 

08/27/2013 
A

m
in, N

ikesh R
 

12/08/1988 
901 

S
. F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
P

S
I 

31106 
08/27/2013 

B
andhan, B

rent 
W

ayne 
12/01/1990 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33416 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

31107 

31108 

08/27/2013 

08/27/2013 

B
artom

ioli, H
olly 

M
arie 

B
eat, C

raig John 

12/21/1 991 

02/1 6/1 989 
I 

901 S
. F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 

901 S
. F

lagler D
rive 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
- 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

I 
33416 

08/27/2013 

08/27/2013 

P
S

I 
31109 

P
S

I 
31110 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

04/17/1980 

31111 
08/28/2013 

03/03/1992 

12/19/1987 

08/28/2013 

08/29/2013 

C
am

peau, A
ngelea 

S
loan 

C
apussi, Laura 

Leanne 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

31114 

31115 

02/21/1990 

02/03/1989 

08/29/2013 

08/29/2013 

P
S

I 

D
akw

a, D
avid 

C
arranza, A

bel 
R

uben 

31116 

01/07/1 989 

02/06/1989 

P
S

I 
31117 

08/29/2013 
C

laude, R
elande 

P
S

I 

08/29/2013 

31118 

P
S

I 

11/09/1983 

08/29/2013 

31119 

C
linton, K

elsey N
icole 

C
yca, A

li N
icole 

08/29/2013 

05/18/1992 

C
raver, W

illiam
 Jay 

07/26/1990 

08/17/1992 

P
S

I 
31120 

08/29/2013 
C

ontreras, K
ristina 

09/02/1985 

901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 

t901 
S

. F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:20:56A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 8 of 8 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

B
uchanan, R

ichard 
04/21/1986 

T
yler 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 

2467 S
helby C

reek R
d W

 

P
L Location 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32221 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic. p_dxlS

l 5:09/12/2013 11:20:02 
O

N
D

 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 

P
S

I 
31121 

08/29/2013 
D

riscoll, S
hayna 

M
arie 

03/1 9/1 992 
901 

S
 F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 P

alm
 

B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

P
S

I 
31122 

08/29/2013 
D

as, T
im

othy John 
08/12/1987 

901 S
. F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 
P

S
I 

31123 
I 

08/29/2013 
E

ble, K
ossivi G

uy 
09/10/1978 

901 S
 F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 P

alm
 

B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

P
S

I 
31124 

08/29/2013 
E

llis, S
tephanie Jean 

0612211977 
901 S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

31125 

31126 

08/29/2013 
E

w
art, A

shley D
iana 

05/20/1 989 
901 

S
 F

lagler D
rive B

ox 
24708 P

alm
 

B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

08/29/2013 
F

ateru, O
luw

abukola 
A

denike 
05/01/1 976 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, 
F

L 
33416 

H
ialeah, F

L 33012 
P

S
I 

31127 
08/29/2013 

F
ernandez, Jennifer 

M
arie 

08/01/1990 
5821 

W
 3R

d C
t 

P
S

I 
31128 

08/29/2013 
D

ias, E
lizeu T

eixeira 
Jr 

08/09/1982 

I 

901 
S

 F
lagler D

rive B
ox 

24708 P
alm

 B
each 

A
tlantic U

niv. 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33416 

P
S

I 
31129 

08/29/2013 
C

aslavka, S
hane 

M
atthew

 
06/26/1990 

1401 A
lbrecht B

lvd 103 
S

udro H
all 

F
argo, N

D
 

58102 

P
S

I 
31130 

08/29/2013 
Y

assa, D
iana F

arid 
11/16/1987 

1008 G
reen P

ine B
lvd A

pt 
B

2 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33409 

P
S

I 
31131 

08/30/2013 
G

arciarena-K
raftchen 

ko, M
ae 

04/01/1976 
8590 Long P

oint R
oad 

H
ouston, T

X
 

77055 

P
S

I 
31132 

08/30/2013 

T
otal R

ecords: 
150 



D
ivision of O

uclify 
C

O
M

PA
S D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

k A
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 
R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
O

riginal Liccnsc D
atc 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
—

 
P

age 
1
 
o
f
4
7
 

P
r
o
c
e
s
s
e
d
:
 
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
3
 
1
1
:
2
2
:
3
7
A
M
 

R
a
n
k
 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49128 
07/01/2013 

C
unningham

, Y
ajaira 

07/29/1991 
O

ther 
M

iam
i D

ade 
C

ollege 
30237 S

w
 162 A

ve 
: H

om
estead, 

F
L 

33033 
A

yesha 
—

 

R
P

T
 

49129 
07/01/2013 

H
aw

es, E
bony 

10/23/1981 
6621 F

annin S
t 

H
ouston, T

X
 

77030 
iitoinise 

R
P

T
 

49130 
07/01/2013 

M
ichel 

H
arold B

row
n 

05/17/1993 
700 N

e 6T
h A

venue 
D

efray B
each 

F
L 

33483 

R
P

T
 

49131 
07/01/2013 

N
ottingham

 
N

icole 
11/27/1971 

O
ther 

8342 
N

 
S

antos D
rive 

C
itrus S

prings 
F

L 
34434 

.
:
L
e
s
l
e
e
 

R
P

T
 

49132 
07/01/2013 

H
esly B

row
n 

08/1 5/1 958 
W

algreens 
2257 V

ista P
arkw

ay 
W

est P
alm

 B
each 

F
L 

D
eborah M

arie 
. S

uites 14-15 

R
P

T
 

49133 
1 

07/01/2013 
A

kins, K
aylee A

nn 
09/14/1992 

2117 B
yron B

utler 
P

erry, F
L 

32348 

R
P

T
 

49134 
07/01/2013 

F
agan, D

ezarae 
02/03/1 994 

W
a
l
g
r
e
e
n
s
 

12001 S
outhern B

lvd 
Loxahatchee, F

L 
33470 

C
atherine 

R
P

T
 

49135 
07/01/2013 

M
artin, C

hinita 
02/05/1 987 

O
ther 

T
raviss C

areer C
enter 

4355 C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
 A

ve A
pt 

Lakeland, F
L 

33809 
V

onshea 
143 

R
P

T
 

49136 
07/01/2013 

S
osslau 

S
eth B

rian 
04/07/1 975 

3
6
9
9
 M

ission C
ourt 

Largo 
F

L 
33771 

R
P

T
 

49137 
07/01/2013 

T
iglao, M

aria 
05/02/1982 

O
ther 

P
ass A

ssured S
irnfarose 

10016 P
ines B

lvd 
P

em
broke P

ines, 
F

L 
C

hristina 
P

harm
acy 

33024 

R
P

T
 

49138 
07/01/2013 

B
ogus 

G
ary A

lan 
03/27/1 968 

801 
B

unker C
ircle 

W
inter H

aven 
F

L 
33881 

R
P

T
 

49139 
07/01/2013 

B
enham

, K
risten 

03/13/1989 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 24195 U
s H

ighw
ay 19 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33763 
N

orth Lot 422 

R
P

T
 

49140 
07/01/2013 

G
onzalez 

K
asandra 

07/27/1985 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 885W
 69T

h S
t 

H
ialeah 

F
L 

33014 

R
P

T
 

49141 
07/01/2013 

C
urka 

K
im

 S
uzanne 

08/21/1 967 
2424 S

andm
ine R

oad 
D

avenport 
F

L 
33897 

R
P

T
 

49142 
07/01/2013 

R
odriguez Jesus 

11/25/1990 
951 S

w
 7T

h S
t#5 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33130 

M
anLiel 

R
P

T
 

49143 
07/01/2013 

W
ood 

E
lizabeth 

08/21/1970 
R

asm
ussen C

ollege 
10168 Lake M

iona W
ay 

O
xford 

F
L 

34484 
A

nne 
. 

- 
. 

R
P

T
 

49144 
07/01/2013 

S
urguine 

Lindsay 
08/18/1986 

3372 C
anoe C

reek R
d 

S
aint C

loud 
F

L 
34772 

. 

R
P

T
 

49145 
07/01/2013 

1 S
tecko, Laurette M

 
02/16/1951 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

04302013 
1400 C

oral R
idge D

rive 
C

oral S
prings, F

L 
33071 

Inc 

R
P

T
 

49146 
07/01/2013 

W
illiam

s 
S

ielean 
02/01/1973 

W
al M

art 
1450 Johns Lake R

d 
C

lerm
ont 

F
L 

34711 
S

m
ith 

R
P

T
 

49147 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
1
3
 

P
r
i
e
t
o
G
o
m
e
z
 

06/28/1971 
1
9
1
1
 S
w
 2N

d S
t#i 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33135 

S
o
r
a
n
g
e
l
 

R
P

T
 

49148 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
1
3
 

M
c
k
i
n
n
e
y
 

D
anielle 

08/11/1 973 
1
4
3
2
0
 
S
p
r
i
n
g
h
i
l
l
 D

r 
S

pring H
ill 

F
L 

34609 
. 

R
P

T
 

49149 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
1
3
 

O
w
e
n
s
 

M
ontario 

06/25/1989 
9
2
0
9
 O

viedo R
oad 

Jacksonville 
F
L
 

32221 

L
e
s
h
a
w
n
 

. 
. 

. 
. 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxI5l 5:09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

M
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 
: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
S

oil O
rdeF: 

L
icense D

ale 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Page 2 of 47 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49150 
07/01/2013 

B
rannen 

Larissa 
07/24/1994 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

14039 C
r 127 

S
anderson 

F
L 

32087 
N

icolle 

R
P

T
 

49151 
07/01/2013 

M
urphy, A

riel 
02/09/1992 

8833lam
iarni T

rail N
orth 

N
aples, F

L 
34108 

D
orriinique 

- 
- 

R
P

T
 

49152 
07/01/2013 

M
ateo, Jorge Luis 

02/21/1979 
3636 H

arden 
B

lvd 
Lakeland 

F
L 

33 

R
P

T
 

49153 
07/01/2013 

Lew
is 

A
lden R

ex 
08/09/1 960 

3520 F
ox H

ollow
 D

rive 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32829 

R
P

T
 

49154 
07/01/2013 

H
am

ilton, G
inny 

03/09/1973 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
13455 C

ounty Line R
oad 

S
pring H

ill, 
F

L 
34609 

R
enee 

Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49155 
07/01/2013 

K
irkw

ood, M
ercedes 

08/21/1991 
902 O

ld P
olk C

ity R
d 

H
aines C

ity, 
F

L 
33844 

K
iara 

R
P

T
 

49156 
07/01/2013 

N
ason, M

ichael E
dw

in 
11/25/1964 

36428 E
ast D

r 
F

ruitland P
ark, 

R
P

T
 

49157 
07/02/2013 

M
orales, Lourdes 

08/06/1975 
O

ther 
P

rofessional T
raining 

3900 S
w

 78 C
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33155 
- 

R
P

T
 

49158 
07/02/2013 

O
rtiz, A

zany 
03/23/1991 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
3130 S

w
 149 A

ve 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33185 

C
enters 

R
P

T
 

49159 
07/02/2013 

S
tober, Lacrecia 

08/03/1974 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
7930 W

oodland C
enter 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33614 
M

aria 
P

kw
y S

uite 500 

R
P

T
 

49160 
07/02/2013 

F
ils 

E
rikaV

 
03/13/1990 

3562 W
ind R

iver R
un 

C
lerm

ont 
F

L 
34711 

R
P

T
 

49161 
07/02/2013 

B
aker 

R
aya M

aria 
02/03/1975 

1110 G
ulf B

reeze P
kw

y 
G

ulf B
reeze 

F
L 

32562 

R
P

T
 

49162 
07/02/2013 

C
lark, A

nnm
arie 

04/08/1970 
628 E

l P
rado A

pt #1 
B

elle G
lade, F

L 
33430 

R
P

T
 

49163 
. 

07/02/2013 
C

arney, B
randon 

10/05/1994 
717 

N
 14T

h S
t 

Leesburg, F
L 

34748 
M

ichael 

R
P

T
 

49164 
07/02/2013 

K
lasinski, Joshua 

06/25/1 983 
5736 C

lark R
d 

S
arasota, 

F
L 

34233 
S

tephen 
. 

R
P

T
 

49165 
07/02/2013 

C
onverse, S

uzanne 
. 05/28/1958 

415 21S
t S

t 
V

ero B
each, F

L 
32960 

M
aree 

R
P

T
 

. 
49166 

07/02/2013 
H

olzendorl, K
eshon 

01/31/1986 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

16T
h 207 E

ast 
W

oodbine, G
A

 
31569 

S
hennette 

Jacksonville 
. .. 

. 
. 

R
P

T
 

49167 
07/02/2013 

W
oo, M

ichael Lo 
01/14/1980 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida - 

3627 H
alf M

oon D
r 

. O
rlando, F

L 
32812 

- 
. 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 

R
P

T
 

49168 
07/02/2013 

W
illiam

 
Laila 

05/27/1962 
M

cfatterT
echnical C

enter 
6721 N

w
 61 S

t S
treet 

T
am

arac 
F

L 
33321 

R
P

T
 

49169 
07/02/2013 

H
all 

K
im

berly 
08/23/1 982 

214 S
 

U
 

S
 H

w
y 41 

Inverness 
F

L 
34450 

S
havone 

R
P

T
 

49170 
07/02/2013 

R
yan 

A
quil S

hakir 
05/31/1995 

2933A
zalea R

d 
A

popka 
F

L 
32703 

R
P

T
 

49171 
07/02/2013 

C
lark, D

oriteeR
 

05/22/1987 
7920 M

errifl R
d #1106 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32277 

R
P

T
 

49172 
07/02/2013 

M
ccoy 

D
ouglas 

10/12/1992 
2160 H

ow
land B

lvd 
D

eltona 
F

L 32738 
G

regory 
-. 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
3 11:21 

41 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

A
s5urcnce 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eportiug System

 

,\ A
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 
: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
Sort O

idcr: O
riginal 

D
ate 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Page i at 47 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49173 
07/02/2013 

Q
uinn, R

achele 
04/14/1 973 

M
cfatter T

echnical C
enter 

4920 N
w

 2N
d C

t 
B

oca R
aton, F

L 
33431 

D
eborah 

R
P

T
 

49174 
07/02/2013 

P
entycofe, M

itzi 
11/13/1963 

4417 N
w

 B
litchton R

oad 
O

cala, F
L 

34482 
C

liai ene 

R
P

T
 

491 
02/2013 

D
um

ontier-H
iott, 

1295 S
 M

issouri A
ve 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33756 
Jasm

ine 
R

P
T

 
49176 

07/02/2013 
S

chm
idt, C

helsea 
03/25/1990 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

2038 U
s H

w
y 98 

S
anta R

osa B
each, F

L 
N

icole 
Inc. 

32459 

R
P

T
 

49177 
07/02/2013 

D
iaz 

Isabel 
07/14/1 993 

5200 S
w

 34T
h S

t 
G

ainesville 
F

L 
32608 

R
P

T
 

49178 
07/02/2013 

B
ellm

an, K
atrina 

11/01/1990 
3500 S

e M
aricam

p R
d 

O
cala, F

L 
34471 

M
ichelle 

R
P

T
 

49179 
07/02/2013 

G
onzalez 

Jam
es 

07/17/1962 
8880 T

aurus C
ircle S

outh 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32222 
E

dw
ard 

R
P

T
 

49180 
07/02/2013 

C
ornejo, S

tephanie 
: 01/09/1994 

1910 N
. John Y

oung P
kw

y 
K

issim
m

ee, F
L 

34741 
lvette 

R
P

T
 

49181 
07/02/2013 

C
urry 

K
iersten 

04/01/1 990 
550 N

 
P

ine Island R
oad 

P
lantation 

F
L 

3332k 
N

ichelle 

R
P

T
 

49182 
07/02/2013 

G
onzalez 

A
ne 

10/09/1975 
900 R

yscaine B
lv 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33132 

R
P

T
 

49183 
07/02/2013 

E
verett, A

m
ber Leigh 

03/07/1989 
1228 T

ech B
lvd 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33619 

R
P

T
 

49184 
07/02/2013 

N
ovak, N

icole A
shley 

07/27/1992 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
522 S

addlew
ood Lane 

W
inter S

prings, F
L 

32708 
Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49185 
07/02/2013 

S
cott, A

shley 
06/30/1987 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 

1019 23R
d S

t 
O

rlando, F
L 

32805 

R
P

T
 

49186 
07/02/2013 

C
ulpepper T

yler 
08/22/1986 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket 

5609 N
w

 69T
h Lane 

G
ainesville 

F
L 

32653 
Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49187 
07/02/2013 

D
ow

ell, D
arby Lynn 

05/15/1979 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

l6T
om

C
ostineR

d. 
Lakeland, F

L 
33809 

R
P

T
 

49188 
07/03/2013 

W
ard 

D
ebby K

ay 
10/16/1954 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket 

1765 H
opper #2 

N
iceville 

F
L 

32578 
Inc. 

. 
.. 

R
P

T
 

49189 
07/03/2013 

W
erner 

T
am

ara A
nn 

04/03/1 984 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
2002 2002 B

lind P
ond A

ve 
Lutz 

F
L 

33549 

O
f P

harm
acy 

R
P

T
 

49190 
07/05/2013 

Lucena 
S

uzette M
 

10/30/1990 
11120 S

 
C

row
n W

ay 
W

ellington 
F

L 
33414 

S
uitell 

R
P

T
 

49191 
07/05/2013 

M
etzner 

Juliana 
11/1 9/1 989 

6700 B
ayshore 

R
d 

N
orth F

ort M
yers 

F
L 

33917 

R
P

T
 

49192 
07/05/2013 

P
atel 

H
iral M

 
01/31/1 991 

13731 A
ntler P

oint D
r 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33626 

R
P

T
 

49193 
07/05/2013 

M
organ, M

ark A
lan 

06/13/1964 
4703 34T

h A
ve W

 
B

radenton, F
L 

34209 

R
P

T
 

49194 
07/05/2013 

Lund 
Judith Lynn 

02/28/1 955 
857 W

est B
ay D

r 
Largo 

F
L 

33770 

R
P

T
 

49195 
07/05/2013 

Lara 
A

lexis N
ohem

i 
08/23/1993 

10016 P
ines B

lvd 
P

em
broke P

ines 
F

L 
33024 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
3 11:21.41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical 

C
O

IV
IP

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eportitig System

 

M
 

iN
ew

 Liccnse R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

O
rder: 

D
atc 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
—

 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49196 
07/05/2013 

P
once, Laura 

09/14/1973 
5028 O

keechobee B
lvd 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

V
eronica 

33417 

R
P

T
 

49197 
07/05/2013 

P
ledger 

K
aren Leigh 

06/19/1978 
4829 C

herokee H
ts 

R
d 

P
anam

a C
ity 

F
L 

32404 

R
P

T
 

49198 
07/05/2013 

: Lianes R
am

irez, 
:05/27/1990 

11398 Q
uail R

oost D
r 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33157 
M

aria 

R
P

T
 

49199 
07/08/2013 

P
ozo 

H
ilda M

 
04/21/1 964 

5247 
N

 W
 4T

h T
err 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33126 

R
P

T
 

49200 
07/08/2013 

Lopez 
E

ulalia E
lexia 

02/1 2/1 963 
8331 

N
 W

 S
outh R

iver D
r 

M
edley 

F
L 

33166 

R
P

T
 

49201 
07/08/2013 

P
hillips, B

ret 
09/15/1985 

11120 S
outh C

row
n W

ay 
W

ellington, F
L 

33414 
Jonathan 

- 
l 

R
P

T
 

49202 
07/08/2013 

M
onteagudo 

Larissa 
11/10/1977 

3715 N
w

 7T
h S

t 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33126 

R
P

T
 

49203 
07/08/2013 

A
ddison 

P
inellas 

11/22/1977 
W

al M
art 

3501 
P

ine R
idge C

ourt 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32808 

F
latiaL 

=
 

R
P

T
 

49204 
07/08/2013 

R
am

os, M
itchel Y

asel 
02/10/1978 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

8848 S
w

 72N
d S

t #H
148 

M
iam

i, 
F

L 
33173 

R
P

T
 

49205 
07/08/2013 

S
ingson, R

andall M
ae 

05/20/1987 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f 

9190 108T
h A

ve. N
orth 

Largo, F
L 

33777 
L 

F
lorida-C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 
. 

. 

R
P

T
 

49206 
07/03/2013 

R
ozinek, C

ourtney 
12/13/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1255 Jeffords S
t A

pt 226A
 

C
learw

ater, 
F

L 
33756 

R
P

T
 

=
 

49207 
07/08/2013 

R
om

an, 
von 

12/10/1960 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
403 M

allard W
ay 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34759 

R
P

T
 

49208 
07/08/2013 

S
anchez Y

anara 
11/29/1989 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
9307 Jam

aica D
rive 

C
utler B

ay 
F

L 
33189 

C
enters 

R
P

T
 

49209 
07/08/2013 

S
tew

art, M
elinda 

05/23/1964 
S

hands A
t U

niversity 
1301 

S
hapiro A

ve 
D

eland, F
L 

32724 
E

laine 
O

f F
lorida 

R
P

T
 

49210 
07/08/2013 

M
onsalve, A

m
ber 

12/03/1 986 
W

algreens 
4340 S

outh F
lorida 

Lakeland, F
L 

33813 
Leigh 

A
venue 

R
P

T
 

49211 
07/09/2013 

G
arcia G

uillot 
Irm

a 
07/09/1976 

574 W
estw

ard D
rive 

M
iam

i S
prings 

F
L 

33166 
Lisbet 

R
P

T
 

49212 
1 

07/09/2013 
D

erenoncourt, F
arah 

08/29/1990 
O

ther 
M

c F
atter T

echnical 
8008 N

w
 106 A

ve 
T

am
arac, F

L 
33321 

C
enter 

R
P

T
 

49213 
07/09/2013 

C
rossett 

D
avid C

arl 
01/07/1965 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
706 T

oledo P
lace 

B
randon 

F
L 

33511 

R
P

T
 

49214 
07/09/2013 

C
houte, E

stival 
07/06/1991 

. O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
220 S

w
 27T

h T
errace #2 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 
33312 

R
P

T
 

49215 
07/09/2013 

B
abu 

A
lbin 

10/25/1 993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
38819 6T

h A
ve 

Z
ephyrhills 

F
L 

33542 
K

unj urn m
en 

R
P

T
 

: 

49216 
07/09/2013 

B
erth, E

van A
nthony 

08/10/1994 
611 B

urnt S
tore R

d. 
S

. 
C

ape C
oral, F

L 
33991 

R
P

T
 

49217 
07/09/2013 

F
loyd, Jasm

ine 
02/19/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

. 
1026 C

ountry Lane C
ourt 

Lakeland, F
L 33810 

V
onsha 

R
P

T
 

49218 
07/09/2013 

Jn B
aptiste 

D
 Jonson 

04/29/1977 
6731 

N
w

 26T
h S

treet 
M

argate 
F

L 
33063 

R
P

T
 

49219 
07/09/2013 

H
arris 

D
evon Lee 

12/07/1 991 
T

arget C
orporation 

9350 D
ynasty D

rive 
F

ort M
yers 

F
L 

33905 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
13 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort O
rder: 

License D
ate 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
—

 
P

aoe5of47 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49220 
07/09/2013 

G
ew

olb 
D

ayna 
04/11/1 991 

S
hands A

t U
niversity 

1759 C
ocoplum

 C
t 

Longw
ood 

F
L 

32779 
O

f F
lorida 

R
P

T
 

49221 
07/09/2013 

B
raithw

aite T
ennille 

09/16/1976 
O

ther 
2419 U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
4190 P

lantation O
aks 

O
range P

ark 
F

L 
32065 

lO
fla 

. 
-C

ollege O
iP

haiiiiacy 
.B

lvdU
nit822 

R
P

T
 

49222 
07/09/2013 

H
all 

C
hristopher 

01/27/1992 
O

ther 
2419 U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
2756 M

ystic Lake D
rive 

O
viedo 

F
L 

32765 
-C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

114 

R
P

T
 

49223 
07/09/2013 

A
llen, S

am
uel B

rit 
10/16/1 981 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

:6909 N
orth Lagoon D

rive 
P

anam
a C

ity B
each, F

L 
:U

nitE
2 

32405 

R
P

T
 

49224 
07/09/2013 

H
annon, N

ikki Lynn 
05/07/1990 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida- 

2940 S
. M

ccall R
d. 

E
nglew

ood, F
L 

34224 

.-. 

R
P

T
 

49225 
07/09/2013 

D
avitian, A

lexis 
08/02/1992 

. C
vs C

arem
ark 

12140 N
w

 12T
h S

t 
P

lantation, F
L 33323 

M
ercedes 

R
P

T
 

49226 
07/09/2013 

O
jeda S

anchez, D
m

a 
. 10/05/1991 

. 
K

m
art C

orp. 
4955 G

olden G
ate 

N
aples, F

L 
34116 

P
arkw

ay 

R
P

T
 

49227 
07/09/2013 

R
ivera 

V
eronica 

06/09/1 973 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2353 U

niversity D
rive 

C
oral S

prings F
L 

33065 

R
P

T
 

49228 
07/09/2013 

F
elix 

G
esper 

01/18/1977 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

11002 W
izard W

ay 302 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32836 

R
P

T
 

49229 
07/09/2013 

A
m

ador, C
laritza 

01/22/1 970 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

4431 
S

. T
exas A

ve. 
O

rlando, F
L 

32839 
A

partrnent# 
109 

R
P

T
 

49230 
07/09/2013 

R
ivera G

onzalez, 
. 04/26/1 991 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
924 C

lub S
ylvan D

rive 
O

rlando, F
L 

32825 
K

arla Jaeliz 
A

pt. 
E

 
,... 

. 

R
P

T
 

49231 
07/09/2013 

C
havez 

M
ayrin 

07/27/1 983 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

2160 R
unning H

orse T
rail 

S
aint C

loud 
F

L 
34771 

R
P

T
 

49232 
07/09/2013 

G
onzalez 

A
da Y

anet 
04/29/1980 

O
ther 

F
ortis C

ollege 
301 W

est P
ark D

rive A
pt 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33172 

101 

R
P

T
 

49233 
07/09/2013 

G
om

ez 
N

orm
a M

 
09/08/1954 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

10401 
S

w
 144 C

t 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33186 

R
P

T
 

49234 
07/09/2013 

Jenkins 
T

arshia 
10/19/1971 

5781 
Lee B

lvd 
Lehigh A

cres 
F

L 
33971 

Laverne 
R

P
T

 
49235 

07/09/2013 
D

aniels B
reaunna 

03/03/1992 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
2350 N

e 135 S
treet A

pt 
# 

N
orth M

iam
i 

F
L 

33181 

1503 

R
P

T
 

49236 
07/09/2013 

F
ields C

linique 
08/03/1 992 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

775 N
w

 168 D
rive 

M
iam

i G
ardens 

F
L 

33169 

R
P

T
 

49237 
07/09/2013 

C
ook 

Laura C
hanel 

01/01/1 986 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2889 C

am
p G

race R
oad 

P
ace 

F
L 

32571 

R
P

T
 

49238 
07/09/2013 

. G
onzalez, A

siel 
07/16/1989 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

2735W
. 61 

P
lace A

pt. 
, H

ialeah, F
L 

33016 
107 

R
P

T
 

49239 
07/09/2013 

G
ay 

A
m

inah 
09/06/1 993 

O
ther 

S
anford B

row
n Institute 

6310 C
astelven D

r 
U

nit 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32835 

T
am

pa 
F

lorida 
105 

R
P

T
 

49240 
07/09/2013 

B
ush, T

ereasa J 
08/25/1 985 

V
irginia C

ollege 
- 

5554 O
rtega B

luff Ln 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32244 

Jacksonville 
R

P
T

 
49241 

07/09/2013 
C

ordero 
R

osa E
lena 

03/17/1978 
S

tJosephS
 H

ospital 
T

am
pa 

F
L 

33607 

R
P

T
 

49242 
07/09/2013 

Leiseca 
Julio P

ublio 
10/01/1952 

7000 S
w

 23R
d S

t A
pt 49 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33155 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_iic.p_dxi5l 5:09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort 
O

riginal 
D

atc 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 
P

age6of47 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49243 
07/09/2013 

Lai, Leah Lan 
09/24/1 971 

2965 S
tockw

ood D
rive 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33761 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

2685 
N

. F
orest R

idge B
lvd 

H
ernando, 

F
L 

34442 
Inc. 

M
cfatter T

echnical C
enter 

820 O
riole A

ve 
M

iam
i S

prings, F
L 

33166 

10615 N
arccossee R

d 
O

rlando, F
L 

32832 

R
P

T
 

49247 
07/09/2013 

T
enhet 

T
ina M

 
11/05/1966 

R
idge C

areer C
enter 

1124 S
unshine W

ay 
W

inter H
aven 

F
L 

33880 

R
P

T
 

49248 
07/10/2013 

Jam
es-M

ckie, 
03/27/1 971 

3535 N
. T

am
iam

i T
rI 

S
arasota, F

L 
34234 

C
andace M

ichele 

R
P

T
 

49249 
07/10/2013 

P
aez 

D
epsi 

10/06/1967 
H

ialeah A
dult E

ducation 
11501 S

w
 40T

h S
t 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33165 

C
enter 

R
P

T
 

49250 
07/10/2013 

N
ikolov 

K
rassim

ir 
10/04/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1190 D
unn A

venue 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32218 
K

rassim
irov 

R
P

T
 

49251 
07/10/2013 

Lee, A
m

anda D
evi 

01/22/1990 
O

ther 
M

cfatter T
echnical C

enter 
46T

h 9525 N
w

 46T
h 

S
unrise, F

L 
33351 

S
treet 

R
P

T
 

49252 
07/10/2013 

M
anson, Lisa T

ujana 
02/28/1966 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
2420 P

onkan S
um

m
it D

r. 
A

popka, F
L 

32712 

R
P

T
 

49253 
07/10/2013 

Jam
es, A

shley 
11/18/1992 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
1754 N

w
 58T

h A
ve 

Lauderhill, F
L 

33313 
M

onique 

R
P

T
 

49254 
07/10/2013 

M
ccray 

Linette A
nn 

10/27/1986 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
13363 S

w
 257 T

err 
H

om
estead 

F
L 

33032 

R
P

T
 

49255 
07/10/2013 

M
oore 

M
ichael 

03/30/1 989 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

5077 P
ark C

entral D
r 

A
pt 

O
rlando 

F
L 

32839 
D

arnell 
1525 

R
P

T
 

49256 
07/10/2013 

M
ckinnon 

B
rittany 

12/27/1 991 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
1092 N

w
 74 S

treet 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33150 

R
P

T
 

49257 
07/10/2013 

Love, M
aletha 

11/18/1987 
O

ther 
S

anford B
row

n Institute 
5229 S

onora C
ourt #4 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33617 
T

am
pa 

R
P

T
 

49258 
07/10/2013 

N
unez 

O
svaldo 

03/03/1944 
O

ther 
C

om
plete P

harm
acy A

nd 
5829 N

w
 158T

h S
treet 

M
iam

i Lakes 
F

L 
33014 

M
edical S

olutions 

R
P

T
 

49259 
07/10/2013 

D
uran, X

ochilt 
07/05/1991 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

4010 S
w

 137 S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33175 

S
tephanny 

R
P

T
 

49260 
07/10/2013 

Irizarry 
Juliana 

03/07/1 981 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3606 N

w
 24T

h B
lvd A

pt# 
G

ainesville 
F

L 
32605 

B
arbosa 

111 

R
P

T
 

49261 
07/10/2013 

M
ann S

antana Jose 
07/17/1976 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
25410 S

w
 137T

h A
ve 

H
om

estead 
F

L 
33032 

E
rnesto 

C
enters 

#103 
—

 

R
P

T
 

49262 
07/10/2013 

K
han, N

osheen 
07/07/1 993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2325 T
ybee R

oad 
S

t. C
loud, F

L 
34769 

R
P

T
 

49263 
07/10/2013 

K
now

les 
V

iviana 
10/12/1975 

O
ther 

S
outheastern 

C
ollege 

19460 19460 N
w

 59T
h 

M
iam

i G
ardens 

F
L 

33015 
A

ve 

R
P

T
 

49264 
07/10/2013 

H
aIl 

R
achael Lynn 

12/12/1991 
33164T

h A
ve N

 
B

onifay 
F

L 32425 

R
P

T
 

49244 
07/09/2013 

R
P

T
 

49245 
07/09/2013 

R
P

T
 

49246 
07/09/2013 

S
helton, A

lyssa M
arie 

02/1 5/1 989 

W
ilson, T

heresa 
08/31/1957 

M
ichelle 

R
odriguez-R

ivera, 
03/24/1993 

A
ngel Javier 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rptjic.p_dxI5l 5: 09/i 2/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical O

ua!ity A
s5urance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

k A
 (lj 

R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy 
S

ort O
ider. 

L
icciisc D

atc 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Page 7 of 47 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49265 
07/10/2013 

V
aldes, M

ariam
 

03/26/1976 
B

arry U
niv 

6050 S
. D

ixie H
ighw

ay 
S

outh M
iam

i, F
L 

33143 

M
ukaty 

...,..,,,-—
, 

R
P

T
 

49266 
07/10/2013 

R
odriguez Lorenia 

11/18/1978 
F

lorida E
ducation Institute 

201 N
W

 72N
d A

ve #410 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33126 

R
P

T
 

49267 
07/10/2013 

C
ook 

Joshua 
08/09/1993 

4299 W
ilderness R

d 
V

ernon 
F

L 
32462 

T
hom

as 
R

P
T

 
49268 

07/10/2013 
F

utch 
Jessica R

ay 
12/1 0/1 988 

3909 C
anary P

alm
 C

ir 
C

ity 
F

L 33566 

R
P

T
 

49269 
07/10/2013 

G
raepel 

D
ana M

arie 
05/27/1 987 

280 P
ort S

t Lucie B
lvd 

P
ort S

aint Lucie 
F

L 
34984 

R
P

T
 

49270 
07/10/2013 

T
orres 

D
m

a 
08/23/1 968 

F
lorida E

ducation Institute 
2357 Y

alta T
err 

N
orth P

ort 
F

L 
34286 

R
P

T
 

49271 
07/10/2013 

M
ccum

ber 
T

ern 
03/1 2/1 987 

424 B
anana S

treet 
B

ow
ling G

reen 
F

L 
33834 

M
ichael 

R
P

T
 

49272 
07/10/2013 

O
liver, Lakysha 

11/13/1972 
O

ther 
C

ertified P
harm

acy 
209 S

usan S
t. 

. 
P

erry, 
F

L 32348 

T
yw

han 
T

echnician B
oard 

R
P

T
 

49273 
07/10/2013 

N
ielsen, T

oriee 
. 09/29/1 992 

O
ther 

. P
ass A

ssured 
4233 A

uckland 
R

d 
P

ace, F
L 

32571 

M
ariee 

. 

R
P

T
 

49274 
07/10/2013 

S
igler, P

atricia 
07/16/1970 

H
ialeah H

ospital 
651 

E
ast 25 S

treet 
H

ialeah, F
L 

33013 

A
nnette 

R
P

T
 

49275 
07/10/2013 

N
azareno 

M
ark 

12/14/1988 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
10944 W

itchaven S
t 

Jacksonville 
F

L 
32246 

R
P

T
 

49276 
07/10/2013 

C
ourville, Jeliena 

05/1 3/1 993 
599 O

ak R
iver C

ourt 
O

sprey, F
L 

34229 

N
adine 

R
P

T
 

49277 
07/10/2013 

. M
asic, A

rnela 
07/01/1 993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1433 S
 B

elcher R
oad A

pt. 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33764 

F
-17 

R
P

T
 

49278 
07/10/2013 

M
orand, H

ollie Linn 
05/25/1992 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

2809 39T
h S

tW
 

B
radenton, F

L 
34205 

Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49279 
07/10/2013 

T
hom

as 
M

elissa Lee 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
602W

 M
ain S

treet 
Inverness 

F
L 

34450 

R
P

T
 

49280 
07/10/2013 

O
'Q

uinn, K
aitlyn 

:09/10/1993 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket. 
1070 S

tardust W
ay 

D
eland, F

L 
32720 

R
achelle 

.. Inc. 
. 

... 

R
P

T
 

49281 
07/10/2013 

Jam
es, C

hakia N
akia 

05/26/1990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2316 5T

h A
ve D

ry E
st 

P
alm

etto, F
L 

34221 

R
P

T
 

49282 
07/10/2013 

H
otz 

E
m

ily Laing 
01/26/1994 

2400 S
 R

idgew
ood A

ve 
S

outh D
aytona 

F
L 

32119 

R
P

T
 

49283 
07/10/2013 

Jean 
Lycerda 

12/15/1990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2418 S

w
 B

rescia S
t 

P
ort S

aint Lucie 
F

L 
.34953 

R
P

T
 

49284 
07/10/2013 

K
akareka 

K
arm

a 
04/23/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

6005 S
t A

ugustine R
d 

Jacksonville 
F

L 
32217 

M
arie 

R
P

T
 

49285 
07/10/2013 

P
eden, C

urtis A
rthur 

09/14/1963 
O

ther 
E

verestt U
niversity 

577 S
.W

.D
extercircle 

A
pt. 

Lake C
ity, F

L 
32025 

Jacksonville, 
:102 

.... 
. 

R
P

T
 

49286 
07/10/2013 

P
oucher 

T
ern 

Lyn 
08/18/1961 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f 
2038 N

w
 50T

h A
ve 

O
cala 

F
L 

34482 

F
lorida-C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



O
M

sion of O
uu!ity A

ssuronce 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

M
 

L
icense R

eport for 2208 
: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
Sort 

Licen;c D
ate 

—
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
P

afle 8 of 4
7
 

P
r
o
c
e
s
s
e
d
:
 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
a
n
k
 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

4
9
2
8
7
 

0
7
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

M
o
s
e
r
,
 A
s
h
l
e
y
 
M
a
r
i
e
 

0
9
/
2
8
/
1
9
8
5
 

C
v
s
 C
a
r
e
m
a
r
k
 

6
7
8
3
 V
e
r
o
n
i
c
a
 
C
o
u
r
t
 

S
t
 A
u
g
u
s
t
i
n
e
 
F
L
 
3
2
8
0
6
 

R
P
T
 

4
9
2
8
8
 

0
7
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

O
l
i
m
p
o
,
 
J
u
d
i
t
h
 

1
1
/
0
9
/
1
9
9
2
 

6
0
1
 

E
. A

ltam
onte D

r. 
A

ltam
onte S

prings, F
L 

G
abrido 

3
2
7
0
1
 

R
P
T
 

49289 
07/10/2013 

P
ehr Jill A

nne 
06/23/1990 

W
algreens 

340 Low
ndes A

ve 
O

rm
ond B

each 
F

L 
32174 

R
P

T
 

49290 
07/10/2013 

M
oran, K

im
berly 

09/23/1963 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
101 

N
orth W

albash A
v
e
 

Lakeland, F
L 

33815 
Louise 

R
P

T
 

49291 
07/10/2013 

Innocent, N
adina 

04/29/1990 
W

algreens 
2010 S

w
 C

ollege R
d 

O
cala, F

L 
34474 

A
s
h
l
e
y
 

R
P

T
 

49292 
07/10/2013 

C
astillo, M

aria P
aula 

07/29/1992 
. 

. 
. 

... 
4351 

U
s 27 

C
!erm

ont,F
L 

34711 

R
P

T
 

49293 
07/10/2013 

B
udding, E

die N
ichole 

07/28/1 981 
9902 S

outh T
hom

as D
r 

P
anam

a C
ity B

each, 
F

L 

#1001 
3
2
4
0
8
 

R
P
T
 

4
9
2
9
4
 

0
7
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

A
h
l
s
t
r
o
m
,
 M
e
g
h
a
n
n
 

0
6
/
0
3
/
1
9
8
3
 

4
0
3
 A
n
a
s
t
a
s
i
a
 
B
l
v
d
 

S
a
i
n
t
 A
u
g
u
s
t
i
n
e
,
 
F
L
 

K
a
t
h
l
e
e
n
 

3
2
0
8
0
 

R
P
T
 

4
9
2
9
5
 

0
7
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

H
e
r
r
e
r
a
 

N
icole 

09/11/1994 
3375 B

oggy C
r
e
e
k
 R
d
 

K
i
s
s
i
n
i
m
e
e
 
F
L
 
3
4
7
4
4
 

K
athleen 

R
P

T
 

49296 
07/10/2013 

B
ates 

C
aitlin M

ichelle 
09/14/1988 

4100 M
ilitary T

rail 
Jupiter 

F
L 

33458 

R
P

T
 

49297 
07/10/2013 

A
lvarado, P

am
ela 

07/13/1965 
2814 'J. U

niversity D
r 

. C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33065 

Jean 

R
P

T
 

49298 
07/10/2013 

D
iaz A

raujo, 
07/02/1992 

5280 S
w

 89T
h A

ve 
C

ooper C
ity, 

F
L 

33328 

S
tephanie C

arolina 
., 

. 

R
P

T
 

49299 
07/10/2013 

C
atoggio, A

lisa 
07/16/1981 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

10437 B
ow

 C
ourt 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33498 

C
h
r
i
s
t
i
n
e
 

R
P

T
 

49300 
07/10/2013 

C
ooper, K

eara 
. 06/06/1988 

3405 Londonderry B
lv 

O
rlando, F

L 
32808 

M
a
r
t
i
c
e
 

; 

. 

R
P

T
 

49301 
07/10/2013 

H
enry, C

am
isha 

02/13/1995 
7
1
6
0
 F
o
r
e
s
t
 C

ity R
d A

pt 
O

rlando. F
L 

32810 
.S

hanay 
1
2
2
 

-
 

R
P

T
 

49302 
07/10/2013 

C
ruz, E

lizabeth 
04/13/1993 

O
ther 

M
edical Institute O

f P
alm

 
4750 10T

h A
venue N

 
G

reenacres, F
L 

33463 

B
each 

R
P
T
 

4
9
3
0
3
 

0
7
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

H
i
l
l
,
 
C
h
e
r
y
l
 

1
0
/
2
2
/
1
9
5
9
 

.
 P

ublix S
u
p
e
r
 M
a
r
k
e
t
,
 

5
1
1
 W
i
l
d
e
r
n
e
s
s
 
C
i
r
c
l
e
 

S
e
b
r
i
n
g
,
 F
L
 
3
3
8
7
2
 

I
n
c
 

R
P
T
 

0
7
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

A
n
s
h
a
s
s
i
,
 
M
i
r
a
 
N
i
b
a
l
 

0
8
/
1
 2
/
1
 9
9
3
 

C
v
s
 C
a
r
e
m
a
r
k
 

8
2
0
3
 C
o
l
l
i
e
r
 P
1
 

T
a
m
p
a
,
 F
L
 
3
3
6
3
7
 

R
P
T
 

4
9
3
0
5
 

0
7
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

C
renshaw

, 
K
r
i
s
t
e
n
 

0
5
/
2
0
/
1
 9
8
6
 

C
v
s
 C
a
r
e
m
a
r
k
 

2
0
7
1
 
L
a
k
e
w
o
o
d
 D
r
 

C
l
e
a
r
w
a
t
e
r
,
 
F
L
 
3
3
7
6
3
 

L
e
i
g
h
 

.
 

.,,, 

R
P

T
 

4
9
3
0
6
 

0
7
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

H
e
r
n
a
n
d
e
z
,
 
J
e
s
u
s
 

0
6
/
1
2
/
1
9
8
9
 

W
a
l
g
r
e
e
n
s
 

6
0
0
3
 1
4
T
h
 
S
t
 W
e
s
t
 

B
r
a
d
e
n
t
o
n
,
 F
L
 
3
4
2
0
7
 

R
a
f
a
e
l
 

.
 

., 
R

P
T

 
4
9
3
0
7
 

0
7
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

D
e
 P
a
s
i
o
n
 
J
e
n
e
l
l
e
 

09/30/1993 
C
v
s
 C
a
r
e
m
a
r
k
 

3
8
7
4
 W
o
o
d
 
T
h
r
u
s
h
 
D
r
i
v
e
 

K
i
s
s
i
m
m
e
e
 
F
L
 
3
4
7
4
4
 

L
e
a
n
n
e
 

.
 

. 

R
P

T
 

4
9
3
0
8
 

0
7
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

B
a
i
l
i
f
f
 
A
u
s
t
i
n
 T
a
t
e
 

0
4
/
0
9
/
1
 9
9
1
 

O
t
h
e
r
 

U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
O
f
 F
l
o
r
i
d
a
 

2
7
0
8
 N
e
 W
a
l
d
o
 R
d
 

G
a
i
n
e
s
v
i
l
l
e
 
F
L
 
3
2
6
0
9
 

C
o
l
l
e
g
e
 O
f
 P
h
a
r
m
a
c
y
 

F
l
o
r
i
d
a
 D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 o
f
 H
e
a
l
t
h
 

p
k
g
_
r
p
t
_
I
i
c
.
p
_
d
x
l
5
l
 5
:
0
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
3
 1
1
:
2
1
:
4
1
 

O
N

D
 



of O
L'a!ity 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

K
 A

 
A

 
L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy 
S

ort O
rder. O

riginal Liccnsc D
ate 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
—

 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49309 
07/10/2013 

A
nderson, H

eather 
12/06/1986 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
3280 S

tarratt R
d 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32226 
G

race 

R
P

T
 

49310 
07/10/2013 

F
igueredo P

erez 
08/26/1962 

1675 S
w

 67 A
ve 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33155 

B
lanca 

R
P

T
 

49311 
07/11/2013 

F
efe, R

olanda 
09/20/1987 

O
ther 

M
edical Institute O

f P
alm

 
1425 B

anyan Lane 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 

B
each 

33415 

R
P

T
 

49312 
07/11/2013 

G
ordon 

K
aren D

 
08/12/1971 

O
ther 

M
cfatter T

echnical C
enter 

4850 N
w

 
29T

h C
ourt A

pt 
Lauderdale Lakes 

F
L 

230 
33313 

R
P

T
 

49313 
07/11/2013 

F
ernandez 

R
ita 

12/24/1986 
O

ther 
P

rofessional T
raining 

15601 S
w

 137T
h A

ve 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33177 

C
enters 

#183 

R
P

T
 

49314 
07/11/2013 

A
niiot 

R
ebeca 

01/24/1 975 
O

ther 
P

rofessional T
raining 

13933 S
w

 46T
h T

err A
pt A

 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33175 

C
enters 

R
P

T
 

49315 
07/11/2013 

C
ajuste, M

ilene 
08/05/1984 

337 S
. N

orthiake B
lvd 

A
ltam

onte S
prings, F

L 

S
uite 1024 

32701 

R
P

T
 

49316 
07/11/2013 

G
ray 

T
am

erlan 
05/09/1985 

3210 
N

J P
alm

 A
ve 

H
ollyw

ood 
F

L 
33026 

R
P

T
 

49317 
07/11/2013 idres, 

01/29/1 993 
5701 

C
oral R

idge D
rive 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33076 

M
onica 

R
P

T
 

49318 
07/11/2013 

C
hang 

Liaym
argarita 

02/28/1984 
4411 W

 
Jean S

t 
T

am
pa 

F
L 33614 

R
P

T
 

49319 
07/11/2013 

H
orow

itz 
Jodi A

lise 
07/17/1985 

717 N
orth 

14T
h S

treet 
Leesburg 

F
L 

34748 

R
P

T
 

49320 
07/11/2013 

B
!ankeribiller, C

ristina 
11/14/1991 

. 
950 B

landing B
lvd 

O
range P

ark, F
L 

32065 
M

arleny 
. 

. 

R
P

T
 

49321 
07/11/2013 

B
oyd 

Lynnaye E
ssie 

11/02/1990 
2425 M

ission R
d A

pt 
1201 

T
allahassee 

F
L 

32304 

R
P

T
 

49322 
07/11/2013 

G
arcia 

Luisa 
04/07/1978 

3187 S
 

C
ongress A

ve 
P

alm
 S

prings 
F

L 
33461 

R
P

T
 

49323 
07/11/2013 

Le 
S

andy N
hatrang 

02/13/1985 
10150 B

loom
ingdale A

ve 
R

iverview
 

F
L 

33578 

R
P

T
 

49324 
07/11/2013 

E
squivel 

M
agdalys 

08/31/1971 
3187 S

 C
ongress A

ve 
P

alm
 S

prings 
F

L 
33461 

R
P

T
 

49325 
07/11/2013 

B
radford 

V
onceil 

09/26/1989 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2672 B

landing B
lvd 

M
iddleburg 

F
L 

32068 

R
P

T
 

49326 
07/11/2013 

T
renholm

 T
rina 

09/1 0/1 961 
C

oastalm
ed O

f F
l 

24W
 

O
ak A

venue 
P

anam
a C

ity 
F

L 
32401 

C
am

ille 

R
P

T
 

49327 
07/11/2013 

G
azarek, Law

rence 
10/08/1 947 

2261 G
ulf T

o B
ay Lot 134 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33765 

R
P

T
 

49328 
07/11/2013 

G
ibson, S

heila R
ose 

03/20/1953 
851 

S
 S

tate R
d 434 

A
ltam

onte S
prings, F

L 
32714 

R
P

T
 

49329 
07/11/2013 

W
alsh 

Jeffrey P
hilip 

10/05/1990 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket 
2724W

 
H

illsborough A
ve 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33614 

. 
Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49330 
07/11/2013 

R
eyes M

ichelle 
11/05/1981 

W
algreens 

2050E
 

O
sceola P

kw
y 

K
issim

m
ee 

F
L 

34743 

R
P

T
 

49331 
07/11/2013 

H
olguin, N

atalia B
 

04/04/1988 
3700 C

om
m

erce P
kw

y 
M

iraniar, F
L 

33025 

R
P

T
 

49332 
07/11/2013 

G
arrett 

K
eivonya 

12/18/1989 
2425 M

ission R
d A

pt 2002 
T

allahassee 
F

L 
32304 

U
nique 

. 
. 

. 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
151 5:09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of Q

uality 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

k A
 ("i A

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort 
O

riginal 
D

ate 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Paoe 10of47 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49333 
07/11/2013 

C
hasteen C

asares 
06/08/1 971 

3891 C
om

m
erce P

kw
y 

M
iram

ar 
F

L 
33025 

C
aryn D

aw
n 

R
P

T
 

49334 
07/11/2013 

M
urphy 

S
tacia Lynn 

08/04/1976 
17050 S

 T
am

iam
i T

rail 
F

ort M
yers 

F
L 

33908 

R
P

T
 

49335 
07/11/2013 

M
archadie S

helly 
09/07/1985 

2623 S
w

 20T
h C

ir 
O

cala 
F

L 
34474 

M
arie 

R
P

T
 

49336 
07/11/2013 

P
erez-M

achado, 
09/25/1961 

4290 S
W

. 2 T
err 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33134 

D
ulce M

aria 

R
P

T
 

49337 
07/11/2013 

F
rancois, G

regory 
05/14/1983 

1726 W
ashington S

t #7 
H

oflyw
ood, F

L 
33020 

R
P

T
 

49338 
07/11/2013 

V
earw

ood 
M

indy Lee 
01/20/1987 

G
ulf C

oaset S
tate C

ollege 
24 W

est O
ak A

ve 
P

anam
a C

ity 
F

L 
32401 

R
P

T
 

49339 
07/11/2013 

D
ouglas K

yrsten 
02/27/1990 

865 H
ibernia R

d 
F

lem
ing Island 

F
L 

32003 
M

arie 
R

P
T

 
49340 

07/11/2013 
B

asraj 
G

abriel 
02/06/1984 

2480 P
ga B

lvd 
P

alm
 B

each G
ardens 

F
L 

33410 

R
P

T
 

49341 
07/11/2013 

B
erkley 

A
lyssa 

08/21/1989 
7403 A

lom
a A

ve 
W

inter P
ark 

F
L 

32792 
E

laine 
R

P
T

 
49342 

07/11/2013 
B

ean, E
rika 

11/21/1989 
6050 S

o. D
ixie H

w
y 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33143 

R
P

T
 

49343 
07/11/2013 

C
olon V

ega 
Jean C

 
07/24/1982 

5660 C
urryford R

d 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32822 

R
P

T
 

49344 
07/11/2013 

H
ernandez M

inerva 
11/28/1970 

201 
S

w
 27 A

ve 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33135 

R
P

T
 

49345 
07/12/2013 

C
hristy, R

enee 
07/29/1971 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

55 N
. Indiana A

ve 
E

nglew
ood, F

L 
34223 

Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49346 
07/12/2013 

'B
erm

udez, V
icky 

8903 N
W

 171 
Lane 

M
iam

i Lakes, F
L 

33018 

C
hristina 

R
P

T
 

49347 
07/12/2013 

A
lfonso, S

aviel 
. 

. 
4307 

N
 A

rm
enia A

ve 
T

am
pa 

F
L 

33607 

R
P

T
 

49348 
07/12/2013 

E
quevilley, W

endi La 
09/17/1969 

1950 S
tate R

oad 
19 N

orth 
E

ustis, F
L 

32726 
C

helle 

R
P

T
 

49349 
07/12/2013 

C
ovington, A

lbert 
09/08/1 987 

11036 C
reighton D

r 
O

rlando, F
L 

32817 
Lew

is Jr 

R
P

T
 

49350 
07/12/2013 

C
hhouk, D

aw
n 

06/06/1961 
119-41 223R

d S
treet 

C
am

bria H
eights, 

N
Y

 

F
rances 

11411 

R
P

T
 

49351 
07/12/2013 

E
dw

ards, Jam
es 

04/23/1968 
O

ther 
S

outheastern C
ollege 

7811 
D

uck P
ond C

t. 
H

udson 
F

L 
34667 

R
P

T
 

49352 
07/12/2013 

R
aby 

S
ylvia Lynn 

09/28/1 992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
5905 U

s H
w

y 301S
 

R
iverview

 
F

L 
33578 

R
P

T
 

49353 
07/15/2013 

W
yllie 

Janis E
lise 

08/22/1 979 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket 
152 S

 
A

rabella W
ay 

S
aint Johns 

F
L 

32259 
Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49354 
07/15/2013 

S
olla, Jennifer N

icole 
01/07/1993 

T
echnical C

enter O
f 

1130 C
am

bourne D
rive 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34758 

O
sceola 

R
P

T
 

49355 
07/15/2013 

B
itterm

an, M
urray Jay 

03/31/1954 
O

ther 
M

cfatter T
echnical C

enter 
7250 N

.W
. F

irst S
treet A

pt 
M

argate, F
L 

33063 
#207 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent 

of H
ealth 

3 11:21:41 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
PA

S D
atalV

iart R
eporting System

 

k A
 

R
eport for 2208 

R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echiuician 

Sort O
idcc. 

L
icense D

ale 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
—

 
I
I
 
o
f
4
7
 

P
r
o
c
e
s
s
e
d
:
 9
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
3
 
1
1
:
2
2
:
3
7
A
M
 

R
a
n
k
 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
a
t
e
 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

4
9
3
5
6
 

07/15/2013 
R

ousseau, K
aren 

02/19/1994 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
10913 N

. M
ilitary T

rial 
P

alm
 B

each G
ardens, F

L 
Inc. 

33410 

R
PT

 
49357 

0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

M
e
e
k
s
,
 M

elissa 
04/1 7/1 990 

1300 E
. H

allandale B
ch 

H
allandale, F

L 
33009 

K
im

berly 
. 

B
lvd 

R
P

T
 

49358 
07/15/2013 

N
guyen, Q

uynh A
nh 

10/16/1 991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
6536 S

andy O
aks Lane 

O
rlando, F

L
 
3
2
8
0
9
 

R
P
T
 

49359 
0
7
/
1
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

R
oss, D

erek R
obert 

07/07/1 971 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
4090 S

outh T
am

iam
i T

rail 
V

enice,F
L 

34293 

R
P
T
 

49360 
0
7
/
1
6
/
2
0
1
3
 

A
zevedo 

R
honda 

01/08/1 955 
O
t
h
e
r
 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 14404 T

im
othy Lane 

H
udson 

F
L 

34669 

R
P
T
 

4
9
3
6
1
 

0
7
/
1
6
/
2
0
1
3
 

A
l
i
c
e
a
 Jacqu&

yn 
02/08/1990 

100 E
 

International 
D

eland 
F

L 
32724 

D
ezerey 

S
peedw

ay B
lvd 

R
P

T
 

49362 
07/16/2013 

M
ushrush A

pril 
03/18/1987 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 878 N

 
R

idgew
ood A

ve 
O

rm
and B

each 
F

L 
32174 

R
P

T
 

49363 
07/16/2013 

H
oyt 

V
icki R

ichards 
06/25/1 962 

400 
E

 
C

entral B
lvd 

O
rlando 

F
L 

32801 

R
P

T
 

49364 
07/16/2013 

S
m

ith, A
gnes A

 
03/12/1965 

E
verst U

niversity 
3686S

w
 F

orem
ost D

rive 
P

ort S
aint Lucie, F

L 
.34953 

R
P
T
 

49365 
07/16/2013 

B
o
o
t
 
M
a
r
t
h
a
 R
 

1
0
/
2
8
/
1
9
4
5
 

4
5
3
0
 L
a
n
t
a
n
a
 R
d
 

L
a
k
e
 W
o
r
t
h
 
F
L
 
3
3
4
6
3
 

R
P
T
 

49366 
07/16/2013 

D
em

onte, Joshua 
11/21/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1
3
4
1
0
 S
w
 3R

d C
t 

: O
cala, 

F
L 

34473 
A

dam
 

R
P

T
 

49367 
07/16/2013 

D
enum

-H
ochstetler, 

01/18/1994 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1201 S
em

inole B
lvd A

pt 
Largo, F

L 
33770 

A
aron C

asey 
433 

R
P

T
 

49368 
07/16/2013 

D
juric, N

ikolina 
08/21/1 991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2200 34T
h S

treet N
 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33713 

R
P

T
 

49369 
07/16/2013 

D
urm

isevic, A
m

ra 
08/12/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

845 4T
h S

t N
 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33701 

R
P

T
 

4
9
3
7
0
 

0
7
/
1
6
/
2
0
1
3
 

B
e
s
h
a
r
a
,
 E
r
e
n
y
 

1
2
/
1
6
/
1
9
7
5
 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

U
s 19N

 25350 U
s H

w
y 

19 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33763 

W
ahba Labib 

N
orth A

pt # 218 

R
P

T
 

49371 
07/16/2013 

D
avis 

D
eloise 

02/18/1973 
O

ther 
E

verestU
niversity 

3829A
venueJ 

N
w

 
W

interH
aven 

F
L 

33881 

R
P

T
 

49372 
07/16/2013 

Q
u
i
n
o
n
e
s
,
 C

helsey 
01/27/1 992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

14441 M
irabelle V

ista 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33626 

M
ariah 

C
ircle 

R
P

T
 

49373 
07/16/2013 

P
,rm

and 
A

m
ber 

02/14/1992 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket 
9739 F

redericksburg R
d 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33635 

N
icole 

Inc 

R
P

T
 

4
9
3
7
4
 

0
7
/
1
6
/
2
0
1
3
 

G
o
m
e
z
A
l
m
a
z
a
n
,
 

:09/14/1981 
C

vs C
arernark 

19249 S
w

 119 F
l 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33177 
P

erlaB
rigitte 

R
P
T
 

4
9
3
7
5
 

0
7
/
1
6
/
2
0
1
3
 

C
h
e
n
 
T
e
n
g
 

0
9
/
2
0
/
1
 9
8
8
 

C
v
s
 C
a
r
e
m
a
r
k
 

3
6
3
4
 R
o
g
e
r
o
 
R
o
a
d
 

J
a
c
k
s
o
n
v
i
l
l
e
 
F
L
 
3
2
2
7
7
 

R
P
T
 

4
9
3
7
6
 

0
7
/
1
6
/
2
0
1
3
 

C
l
a
r
k
e
,
 M
a
r
y
 J
u
d
e
 

0
4
/
1
 8
/
1
 9
5
9
 

C
v
s
 C
a
r
e
m
a
r
k
 

4
6
 
E
 W
a
t
s
o
n
 R
d
 

S
a
i
n
t
 A
u
g
u
s
t
i
n
e
,
 
F
L
 

3
2
0
8
6
 

R
P
T
 

4
9
3
7
7
 

,
 

07/16/2013 
D

uren, 
Lisa 

0
2
/
2
5
/
1
9
8
0
 

W
a
l
-
M
a
r
t
 

7
4
5
0
 C
y
p
r
e
s
s
 G
a
r
d
e
n
s
 

:
 

W
inter H

aven, F
L 

33884 
B
l
v
d
 

R
P
T
 

4
9
3
7
8
 

0
7
/
1
6
/
2
0
1
3
 

G
i
a
n
o
l
y
 

R
enee M

arie 
11/20/1975 

W
algreens 

2
5
1
1
 M

iddlehurst R
d 

T
itusville 

F
L 

32796 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5.09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

a\ A
 

A
 

L
icense R

eport for 2208 
R

egistered Pharm
acy T

cchiiician 
Sort O

rde. O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
—

 
P

age I2of47 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49379 
07/16/2013 

C
onsalvo, C

laudia 
02/02/1995 

O
ther 

M
cfatter T

echnical H
igh 

6644 A
tlanta S

t. 
H

ollyw
ood, F

L 
33024 

D
anielle 

S
chool 

R
P

T
 

49380 
07/16/2013 

H
am

m
, A

lexis C
arol 

02/28/1990 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
0533 6753 T

hom
asville 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32312 

Inc. 
R

d 

R
P

T
 

49381 
07/16/2013 

A
rford, T

aylor Leigh 
07/20/1992 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

3750 R
oscom

m
on D

rive 
1 

O
rm

ond B
each, F

L 
32174 

R
P

T
 

49382 
07/16/2013 

C
harleston, Louinette 

11/11/1973 
O

ther 
W

algreen 
1318 17T

h S
treet C

t E
 

B
radenton, F

L 
34208 

Lynesey 
1318 17T

h S
treet O

tE
 

R
P

T
 

49383 
07/16/2013 

H
uggard 

S
haron 

07/11/1957 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

2261 
G

ulf T
o B

ay B
lvd Lot 

C
learw

ater 
F

L 
33765 

E
laine 

135 

R
P

T
 

49384 
07/16/2013 

D
enton, D

annielle 
08/16/1989 

T
arget C

orporation 
2000 C

ollege R
oad 

O
cala, F

L 
34471 

Irm
a 

R
P

T
 

49385 
07/16/2013 

A
llan, A

lexandra 
04/24/1990 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
5846 Illinois A

ve 
N

ew
 P

ort R
ichey, F

L 

V
ictoria 

34652 

R
P

T
 

49386 
07/16/2013 

C
arey 

R
ichard B

rian 
03/26/1 979 

O
ther 

O
lym

pia C
om

pounding 
7389 S

pring V
illas C

ir 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

49387 
07/16/2013 

F
erronato, E

rika 
08/24/1977 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
210 S

w
 

11 S
t A

pt 303 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33130 

C
enters 

R
P

T
 

49388 
07/16/2013 

F
olan 

B
rad D

unham
 

05/22/1 984 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
295 C

lifton S
treet 

A
ttleboro 

M
A

 02703 

R
P

T
 

49389 
07/16/2013 

F
um

ero-F
ong, A

na 
10/1 6/1 971 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
6321 

S
w

 80T
h S

t. 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 

33143 

C
enters 

R
P

T
 

49390 
07/16/2013 

F
abregas, lyon 

11/13/1966 
O

ther 
P

rofessional T
raining 

15326 S
w

 138T
h C

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33177 

C
enters 

R
P

T
 

49391 
07/16/2013 

Johnson 
A

licia N
icole 

12/12/1979 
4250 P

hillips H
w

y 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32207 

R
P

T
 

49392 
07/16/2013 

B
urge 

T
aylor A

 
12/04/1992 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
112 S

e 14T
h S

t 
D

eerfield B
each 

F
L 

33441 

R
P

T
 

49393 
07/16/2013 

G
oldberg, C

hristopher. 07)04/1 979 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

252 F
anshaw

 
F

 
B

oca R
aton, F

L 
33434 

F
rederick 

R
P

T
 

49394 
07/16/2013 

G
adberry, C

helsie 
07/1 8/1 992 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
3125 B

uckley A
ve 

Lake W
orth, F

L 
33461 

Jade 
R

P
T

 
49395 

07/16/2013 
E

xalus, N
elen 

09/27/1980 
O

ther 
S

outheastern C
ollege 

815 2N
d S

treet A
pt 4 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33401 

R
P

T
 

49396 
07/16/2013 

Jones 
C

had 
12/31/1989 

24 P
ecan C

ourse Loop 
O

cala 
F

L 
34472 

D
om

inique 

R
P

T
 

49397 
07/1612013 

C
lark, Lachare 

10/01/1992 
O

ther 
S

outheastern C
ollege 

2031 
D

ock S
t. A

pt.B
 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33401 

R
P

T
 

49398 
07/16/2013 

P
alacio 

Laura 
10/30/1993 

1100 N
 John Y

oung P
kw

y 
K

issim
m

ee 
F

L 
34744 

R
P

T
 

49399 
07/16/2013 

D
ang 

Linh 
11/25/1993 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket 

4849 4849 S
 M

ilitary T
rI 

G
reenacres 

F
L 

K
hanhtong 

Inc 
G

reenacres 
33463 5310 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
.dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Suit O
FdeF: 

D
ate 

1 
7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

—
 

13 of47 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49400 
07/16/2013 

F
orbes, R

odger 
09/17/1973 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

3020 N
w

 204 T
errace 

M
iam

i G
ardens, F

L 
33056 

R
P

T
 

49401 
07/16/2013 

F
rancillon 

C
herna 

09/30/1980 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
783 N

w
 102 S

treet 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33150 

R
P

T
 

49402 " 
H

um
phrey 

K
ache 

O
ther 

B
row

n Inctitute 
6888 688R

 N
w

 29T
h 

S
unrise 

F
t. 

A
ngelique 

S
treet 

R
P

T
 

49403 
07/16/2013 

G
onzalez 

R
olando 

12/1 6/1 993 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
770 E

 13T
h S

treet 
H

ialeah 
F

L 
33010 

Jose 

R
P

T
 

49404 
07/16/2013 

F
lannigan 

C
arol Lee 

02/07/1963 
* 2031 

19T
h A

ve W
 

B
radenton 

F
L 

34205 

R
P

T
 

49405 
07/16/2013 

B
um

garner 
Jam

i 
01/20/1985 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

19T
h 3503 19T

h S
t E

ast 
B

radenton 
F

L 
34208 

E
lizabeth 

R
P

T
 

49406 
07/17/2013 

A
nderson 

Julie 
02/02/1983 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

7157 G
as Line R

oad 
K

eystone H
eights 

F
L 

M
ichelle 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 

R
P

T
 

49407 
07/17/2013 

H
etzel 

M
ichele 

06/19/1966 
W

algreens 
9025 

N
 

G
olfview

 D
rive 

C
itrus S

prings 
F

L 
34434 

D
enine 

R
P

T
 

49408 
07/17/2013 

D
e La C

ruz. D
eyariira 

06/23/1975 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
9760 S

w
 184 S

t A
pt 11B

 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33157 

R
P

T
 

49409 
07/17/2013 

B
erns, A

llison 
07/08/1970 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida - 

1483 73R
d C

ircle N
e 

S
t. P

etersburg, 
F

L 
33702 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 

R
P

T
 

49410 
07/17/2013 

C
ruz, F

reddy 
06/21/1991 

C
vs C

arernark 
4050 R

ocky C
ircle U

nit A
 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33613 
202B

 

R
P

T
 

49411 
07/17/2013 

F
orm

by M
elissa R

ae 
06/18/1988 

T
arget C

orporation 
541 

R
oanoke st 

D
unedin 

F
L 

34698 

R
P

T
 

49412 
07/17/2013 

A
m

aya, Lauren M
 

08/16/1995 
O

ther 
M

cfatter T
echnical H

igh 
7440 N

w
 4T

h S
t. A

pt.206 
P

lantation, F
L 

33317 

S
chool 

R
P

T
 

49413 
07/17/2013 

C
odio, F

randeline 
09/28/1989 

O
ther 

H
om

estead Jobcorps 
N

ot P
racticing In F

lorida 
T

allahassee, F
L 

C
enter 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
32314-6320 

R
P

T
 

49414 
07/17/2013 

M
oore 

D
ovie N

icole 
11/04/1 984 

W
algreens 

11430 B
each B

lvd 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32246 

R
P

T
 

49415 
07/17/2013 

M
iller Laura E

m
ily 

03/20/1989 
1295 S

 
M

issouri A
ve 

C
learw

ater 
F

L 
33756 

R
P

T
 

49416 
07/17/2013 

H
ebibi 

A
nisa 

03/13/1993 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 601 
R

osery R
d N

e #2053 
Largo 

F
L 

33770 

R
P

T
 

49417 
07/17/2013 

K
lein 

D
onna M

arie 
03/16/1959 

146 M
ecca S

t 
P

ort C
harlotte 

F
L 

33954 

R
P

T
 

49418 
07/17/2013 

H
uffm

an V
anessa 

06/09/1 990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3800 N

e 168S
t 

N
orth M

iam
i B

each 
F

L 

M
ichelle 

. 
. 

33160 

R
P

T
 

49419 
07/17/2013 

B
ynum

 
K

iara T
 

07/08/1991 
W

al M
art 

5800 U
s 98 

N
 

Lakeland 
F

L 
33809 

R
P

T
 

49420 
07/17/2013 

H
uckaby, E

lizabeth 
.05/03/1994 

C
arem

ark 
1300 A

palachee P
kw

y 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32301 

R
achel 

R
P

T
 

49421 
07/17/2013 

K
oleva, M

onika 
08/21/1992 

2015 E
dgew

ater D
r 

O
rlando. F

L 
32804 

H
ristova 

R
P

T
 

49422 
07/17/2013 

C
am

pbell, R
am

iek 
10/05/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

266 W
indw

ood O
aks D

r. 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33613 

O
keem

 
. 

A
pt 201 

. 
. 

R
P

T
 

49423 
07/17/2013 

C
onlon, H

elena 
.05/15/1956 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

. 
1275 T

eahouse D
rive 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33764 

C
atherine 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p,dxI5l 5.09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality M
surance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

K
 A

 
N

ew
 License 

for 2208 
: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

eC
hiIician 

S
u
i
t
 O

rdci. O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/3112013 
—

 
P

aoe 
1
4
 o
f
4
7
 

P
r
o
c
e
s
s
e
d
:
 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

LJ P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

R
P

T
 

49424 
07/17/2013 

H
ernandez 

K
iara 

05/13/1995 
1010 O

rly D
r 

K
issim

m
ee 

F
L 

34759 

A
ngelic 

R
P

T
 

49425 
07/17/2013 

G
onzalez 

U
lyses 

04/29/1989 
407 Lakeview

 D
r A

pt 102 
W

eston 
F

L 
33326 

S
antiago 

. 

R
P

T
 

49426 
07/17/2013 

Y
ates V

assah 
03/07/1993 

W
ashington H

olm
es 

2605 W
est 23R

d S
treet 

P
anam

a C
ity 

F
L 

32405 

S
ha Lea 

T
echnical C

enter 

R
P

T
 

49427 
07/17/2013 

R
uggles 

Linda Lee 
01/28/1965 

T
arget C

orporation 
3709 A

ndelusia B
lvd 

C
ape C

oral 
F

L 
33909 

R
P

T
 

49428 
07/17/2013 

H
ernandez 

Leyania 
12/15/1 980 

* 
201 S

w
 B

eacom
 B

lvd 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33135 

R
P

T
 

49429 
07/18/2013 

V
ega 

M
ariaJ 

04/15/1985 
O

ther 
P

rofessional T
raining 

11249 
N

 
K

endall D
r 

A
pt 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33176 

C
enters 

G
lO

l 

R
P

T
 

49430 
07/18/2013 

B
ergsm

a, E
m

ilie Jean 
09/24/1993 

. 
21297 

B
lvd 

P
ort C

harlotte, F
L 

2 

R
P

T
 

49431 
07/18/2013 

S
anford 

G
eorge R

ay 
06/03/1 989 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
3252 C

olum
bus D

r 
H

oliday 
F

L 
34691 

R
P

T
 

49432 
07/18/2013 

H
inckley, Jessica 

05/29/1991 
. 

4701 
P

ark B
lvd 

P
inellas P

ark, F
L 

33781 

A
nne-Lee 

. 
. 

. 

R
P

T
 

49433 
07/18/2013 

T
riana-R

eyes, 
'10/08/1973 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
6525 W

est 24 A
ve A

pt 
H

ialeah, F
L 

33016 

M
adaisy 

C
enter 

211 

R
P

T
 

49434 
07/18/2013 

T
roupe, A

shley 
08/30/1986 

O
ther 

S
anford B

row
n Institute 

2605 E
 29T

h A
ve 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33605 

T
am

pa 
. 

... 
. 

R
P

T
 

49435 
07/18/2013 

S
im

m
ons, Lorenza 

11/29/1965 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2356 R

obin R
oad 

. 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 

G
iuseppina 

'., 
33409 

R
P

T
 

49436 
07/18/2013 

D
am

elio John John 
12/01/1965 

6082 C
rayfish D

rive 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32822 

R
P

T
 

49437 
07/18/2013 

B
row

n 
Jennifer S

 
03/1 8/1 992 

9855 Lake W
orth R

d 
Lake W

orth 
F

L 
33467 

R
P

T
 

49438 
' 

07/18/2013 
C

uff, 
E

rinn S
 

07/06/1989 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 9054 B
ridgecreek D

r 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32244 

R
P

T
 

49439 
07/18/2013 

A
ssih E

yana 
04/20/1 982 

932 B
 E

ssex S
t 

Jacksonville 
F

L 
32227 

nidu 
R

P
T

 
49440 

07/18/2013 
H

arrison 
N

ancy K
ay 

08/19/1959 
4849 C

oconut C
reek P

kw
y 

C
oconut C

reek 
F

L 
33063 

R
P

T
 

49441 
07/18/2013 

C
opeland, D

orothy 
05/05/1954 

. 
- 

301 W
est R

oad 
. O

coee, 
F

L 
34761 

Jean 

R
P

T
 

49442 
07/18/2013 

H
arris, D

elecia 
12/28/1989 

: 
7304 C

laudia W
ay 

P
anam

a C
ity, F

L 
32404 

• 
A

nneizer 
., 

.• 
• 

. 
.. 

R
P

T
 

49443 
' 

07/18/2013 
D

unlap, A
m

anda 
08/11/1985 

123 F
airfield D

rive 
: S

aint M
arys, G

A
 

31558 

Jeanne 
. 

: 

R
P

T
 

49444 
07/18/2013 

D
ries T

aylor M
ichele 

10/01/1990 
9975 A

rnold R
d A

pt 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32246 

R
P

T
 

49445 
07/18/2013 

A
ntonelos 

A
nthony 

08/1 6/1 990 
9427 S

outh S
uncoast B

lvd 
H

om
osassa 

F
L 

34446 

C
hristopher 

R
P

T
 

49446 
. 

07/18/2013 
H

ernandez, V
icente 

03/05/1979 
4520 B

ray R
d 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33634 

T
hom

as 
R

P
T

 
49447 

07/18/2013 
W

all 
B

rittany Lynn 
03/1 5/1 988 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

320 E
ast C

anfield S
treet 

A
von P

ark 
F

L 
33825 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
13 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of O

ua!ity A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

k A
 

N
ew

 L
icciise R

eport for 2208 
: R

egistered Pharm
acy 

Soit O
rder: 

D
atc 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
—

 
P

aoe 
15 of47 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49448 
07/18/2013 

P
edraza G

uerrero, 
11/21/1989 

1360 N
w

 28T
h S

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33142 

Liset 

R
P

T
 

49449 
07/18/2013 

R
osario 

V
ictor M

 
06/06/1991 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 10903 

N
 

H
yacinth 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33612 

A
venue 

R
P

T
 

49450 
07/18/2013 

A
lvarez Y

ang 
09/15/1976 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 2843 M

eadow
 W

ood D
rive 

C
learw

ater 
F

L 
33761 

V
ivianna 

I 

R
P

T
 

49451 
07/18/2013 

W
right, H

eather C
 

:04/09/1993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
920 C

alhoun A
ve 

R
P

T
 

49452 
07/18/2013 

A
tta, Irene S

arpom
aa 

01/18/1982 
8802 R

ocky C
reek D

r S
te 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33615 
105 

R
P

T
 

49453 
07/18/2013 

W
right T

abatha A
llice 

04/02/1992 
O

ther 
R

idge C
areer C

enter 
8824 B

uena 
P

1 A
pt 

2107 
W

inderm
ere 

F
L 

34786 

R
P

T
 

49454 
07/18/2013 

R
eynolds 

C
harity A

 
03/10/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1668 C
rooked O

ak D
rive 

O
range P

ark 
F

L 
32065 

R
P

T
 

49455 
07/18/2013 

A
ckerm

an, Janelle 
10/03/1988 

W
al-M

art 
3930 E

asy S
t 

S
outhport, F

L 32409 

Y
vonne 

R
P

T
 

49456 
07/18/2013 

S
zala, C

andice 
04/29/1989 

T
arget C

orporation 
16400 S

tate R
oad 54 

O
dessa, F

L 
33556 

R
P

T
 

49457 
07/18/2013 

C
aban 

A
lejandra 

01/17/1976 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
2927 N

w
97 

S
treet 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33147 

R
P

T
 

4945807/18/2013 
F

olgar, K
eilan 

12/0511989 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
3020 C

ongress P
ark D

rive 
Lake W

orth, F
L 

33461 

A
pt# 216 

R
P

T
 

49459 
07/18/2013 

C
rego, Leticia 

11/05/1970 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
7640 V

V
. 29 W

ay A
pt.# 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33018 

101 

R
P

T
 

49460 
07/18/2013 

H
endry 

R
obyn N

icole 
12/26/1991 

W
al M

art 
3351 

S
 F

erdon B
lvd 

C
restview

 
F

L 32536 

R
P

T
 

49461 
07/18/2013 

G
ilkes 

Lerone E
lihu 

08/07/1983 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

7625 S
ugarberid D

r 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

49462 
07/18/2013 

T
ippet, G

avin M
ichael 

04/07/1994 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

2524 W
hite H

orse R
d E

 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32246 

Jacksonville 

R
P

T
 

49463 
07/18/2013 

G
uerra 

Lazara 
11/12/1971 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

15365 S
w

 73 T
err C

ir 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33193 

E
yleen 

R
P

T
 

49464 
07/19/2013 

H
utchinson, 

06/28/1987 
2725 D

eer B
erry C

t 
Longw

ood, F
L 

32779 

S
am

antha 
. 

.... 
R

P
T

 
49465 

07/19/2013 
N

icol, K
aren A

nn 
12/27/1976 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1421 Q
uailey S

treet 
O

rlando, F
L 

32804 

R
P

T
 

49466 
ó7/19/2013 

G
riffin, S

tephanie 
05/01/1987 

l53W
estJam

esC
irC

le 
H

am
pton, G

A
 30228 

Leanne 

R
P

T
 

49467 
07/19/2013 

D
enIer, S

teven Jam
es 

09/12/1958 
25 N

e 23R
d T

errace 
C

ape C
ora!, F

L 
33909 

R
P

T
 

49468 
07/19/2013 

F
ernandez S

aroza 
12/08/1975 

6504 S
w

 114T
h 

P
1 A

pt D
 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
331 73 

Livia M
 

R
P

T
 

49469 
07/19/2013 

S
ardin 

M
egan 

12/17/1990 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket 
2515 T

honotosassa R
d 

P
lant C

ity 
F

L 33563 

E
lizabeth 

Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49470 
07/19/2013 

: W
alter, C

ynthia 
I 

06/24/1969 
T

arget C
orporation 

9600 W
estview

 D
r 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33076 

R
P

T
 

49471 
. 

07/19/2013 
A

rreaga, Jonathan 
05/09/1989 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

3180 S
afe H

arbor D
r 

N
aples, F

L 
34117 

Jafet 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivtsion of 

M
edical O

uclity A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered 

i'echnician 
Sc,i1. O

ldeL
 

D
ate 

. 
7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

Pa e16of47 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 
g 

R
ank 

L
ic N

br 
Issue D

ate 
Licensee N

am
e 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

R
P

T
 

49472 
07/19/2013 

R
am

ic, A
nel 

:03/25/1992 
1 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

1555 S
. H

ighland A
ve 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33756 

R
P

T
 

49473 
07/19/2013 

C
harles, Latoya 

05/01/1984 
1545 R

ock S
prings R

d 
A

popka, F
L 

32712 
M

errille 
R

P
T

 
49474 

07/19/2013 
Loria, F

Ior 
08/14/1 961 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
3231 

N
Ie 15T

h S
treet 

P
om

pano B
each, F

L 
33062 

R
P

T
 

49475 
07/19/2013 

Laquanda L 
03/26/1988 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

10830 S
w

 154 S
treet 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33157 

—
 * 

R
P

T
 

49476 
07/19/2013 

W
ood 

K
yle 

09/25/1 990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3247 F

inch D
r 

H
oliday 

F
L 

34691 

R
P

T
 

49477 
07/19/2013 

C
ontreras, Jenna 

07/17/1986 
O

ther 
R

asm
ussen C

ollege 
11311 S

toneybrook P
ath 

P
ort R

ichey, F
L 

34668 
M

arie 
R

P
T

 
49478 

07/19/2013 
M

organ 
D

anny Joe Jr 
06/20/1985 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
398 T

urtle D
ove D

rive 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32073 

R
P

T
 

49479 
07/19/2013 

M
aguire 

R
odney 

12/08/1 970 
7800 R

eflecting P
ond C

t 
F

ort M
yers 

F
L 

33907 
R

eith 
#1521 

R
P

T
 

49480 
07/19/2013 

Joseph, S
hernell 

12/31/1982 
O

ther 
M

c F
atter T

echnical 
4160 N

w
 21S

t U
nit F

214 
Lauderhill, F

L 33313 
N

akiesha 
C

enter 

R
P

T
 

49481 
07/19/2013 

Lee 
A

lbert V
ernon 

02/14/1990 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

345 S
onja C

ircle 
D

avenport 
F

L 
33897 

R
P

T
 

49482 
07/19/2013 

M
ontes, D

iana 
10/27/1969 

O
ther 

F
ortis C

ollege 
3086 N

w
 2 S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33125 

M
argarita 

R
P

T
 

49483 
07/19/2013 

W
illiam

s, N
atricia 

11/23/1977 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
9875S

w
 183 S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33157 

Lafane 

R
P

T
 

49484 
07/19/2013 

P
ritchett, Laura S

ites 
09/10/1985 

W
algreens 

7401 5T
h A

ve N
 #9 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33710 

R
P

T
 

49485 
07/19/2013 

O
gborn, S

haron F
aye 

04/13/1951 
13489 G

rebe R
d 

W
eeki W

achee, 
F

L 
34614 

R
P

T
 

49486 
07/19/2013 

P
reka, K

ristjan 
03/08/1993 

O
ther 

P
harm

acy T
echnician 

600145 A
rgyle F

orest B
lvd 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32244 

C
ertification B

oard 

R
P

T
 

49487 
07/19/2013 

P
han, K

im
 S

i 
07/26/1971 

O
ther 

195-V
&

T
 P

harm
acy 

4040W
. W

aters A
ve S

te 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33614 

105 

R
P

T
 

49488 
07/19/2013 

K
alata 

A
pril E

ileen 
10/02/1989 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1867 G
atew

ood D
r 

D
eltona 

F
L 

32738 

R
P

T
 

49489 
07/19/2013 

K
halil, Issa S

 
08/13/1994 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

3400 A
valon P

ark E
ast 

O
rlando, F

L 
32828 

Inc. 
B

lvd 

R
P

T
 

49490 
07/19/2013 

P
alm

a 
Y

ailyn 
04/16/1989 

O
ther 

M
iam

i Lakes E
ducational 

6195W
 18 A

ve A
pt 207 

H
ialeah 

F
L 

33012 
C

enter 

R
P

T
 

49491 
07/19/2013 

Leyva 
M

irta M
 

11/25/1994 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
880E

 
23 S

treet 
H

ialeah 
F

L 
33013 

R
P

T
 

49492 
07/19/2013 

Lopez, B
eleida 

01/06/1975 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
1465 N

e 121 S
treet A

pt 
N

orth M
iam

i, F
L 

33161 

B
502 

R
P

T
 

49493 
07/19/2013 

M
ckenzie 

Jam
ie Lee 

08/30/1988 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
615 S

 P
ine 

S
t 

N
ew

 S
m

yrna B
each 

F
L 

32169 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rptjicp_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



R
P

T
 

49497 
07119/2013 

N
guyen, D

iana K
im

 
10/28/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

6503 P
enton S

treet 

D
ivision of Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

k A
 

A
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 
R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
O

riginal 
D

ate 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 
0 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49494 
07/19/2013 

M
onogyios, M

argarita 
02/07/1994 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
3211 

N
 F

ederal H
w

y 
Pom

pano B
each, F

L 

S
teIla 

33064 

R
P

T
 

49495 
07/19/2013 

M
unroe, K

elly Jennell 
09/24/1964 

2201 W
est S

am
ple R

oad 
P

om
pano B

each, F
L 

33073 

R
P

T
 

49496 
07119/2013 

Livingston, N
icole 

03/26/1992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1601 

1601 Johns Lake 
C

lerm
ont, F

L 
34711 

A
nne 

R
oadA

pt.431 
P

ensacola, F
L 

32506 

R
P

T
 

49498 
07/19/2013 

M
cm

ullian 
D

esm
ond 

05/20/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
219 A

ltam
onte B

ay C
lub 

P
dtarnonte S

prings 
F

L 

M
aurice 

C
ir A

pt 106 
32701 

R
P

T
 

49499 
07/19/2013 

W
eaver 

A
nne M

arie 
04/18/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

5801 C
entral A

venue 
S

aint P
etersburg 

F
L 

33710 

R
P

T
 

49500 
07/19/2013 

R
oberson, F

anteline 
: 05/27/1982 

: C
vs C

arem
ark 

2958 G
reen S

t 
M

arianna, F
L 

32446 

Linda 
R

P
T

 
49501 

07/19/2013 
C

arlos 
Joseph 

04/02/1992 
O

ther 
Jacksonville Job C

orps 
10960 D

elago D
rive 

Jacksonville 
F

L 
32246 

Jam
es P

aras 
C

enter 
R

P
T

 
49502 

07/19/2013 
G

ilkey Jessica N
icole 

11/30/1989 
18236 O

ld P
alestine R

d 
C

rofton 
K

Y
 

42217 

R
P

T
 

49503 
07/1 9/2013 

T
assone, 

08/13/1994 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
4632 V

an K
leeck D

rive 
N

ew
 S

m
yrna B

each, F
L 

A
lexis-D

anielle 
32169 

R
P

T
 

49504 
07/19/2013 

Y
ang 

C
orey F

u 
10/21/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1765 G
ulf T

o B
ay B

lvd 
C

learw
ater 

F
L 

33764 

R
P

T
 

49505 
07/19/2013 

M
albec 

Linda L 
07/1 2/1 963 

1467 S
unset W

ay 
W

eston 
F

L 
33327 

R
P

T
 

49506 
07/19/2013 

Jam
es 

Lorena 
09/19/1984 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

1079W
 

70 P
lace 

H
ialeah 

F
L 

33014 

R
P

T
 

49507 
- 

07/19/2013 
M

uir, Jacqueline 
10/19/1991 

O
ther 

O
nline C

lasses 
5212S

w
141S

t P
1 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33175 

C
arolina 

R
P

T
 

49508 
07/19/2013 

K
raujalis 

S
ara A

nn 
03/24/1 990 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

1311 
S

 
E

 14T
h T

errace 
C

ape C
oral 

F
L 

33990 

R
P

T
 

49509 
07/19/2013 

K
eith 

John 
D

 
03/02/1993 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket 

8407 A
rbour Lake D

r 
Leesburg 

F
L 

34788 
Inc 

A
partm

ent 104 

R
P

T
 

49510 
07/19/2013 

T
aulbee 

K
rysta Lea 

01/24/1983 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
20 S

em
inole T

rI 
P

ensacola 
F

L 
32506 

R
P

T
 

49511 
07/19/2013 

Linton 
S

haw
nci 

12/22/1989 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket 
3115 C

astaw
ay Lane A

pt 
O

viedo 
F

L 
32765 

M
onet 

Inc. 
4-101 

R
P

T
 

49512 
07/19/2013 

R
ush 

S
arah A

nn 
10/07/1 986 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2400 E
nterprise 

O
range C

ity 
F

L 
32763 

R
P

T
 

49513 
07/19/2013 

R
izvi 

D
iana M

 
11/05/1978 

T
arget C

orporation 
8465 R

idgew
ood C

ircle 
S

em
inole 

F
L 

33772 

R
P

T
 

49514 
07/19/2013 

Leino 
K

risten 
11/22/1984 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
266 S

esam
e S

t 
M

iddleburg 
F

L 
32068 

D
anielle 

R
P

T
 

49515 
07/19/2013 

K
apusta 

C
rystal 

05/24/1993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
905 R

uby P
lace 

P
anam

a C
ity 

F
L 

32404 

M
arie 

R
P

T
 

49516 
07/22/2013 

R
othenberger 

11/24/1989 
U

niv 
O

f F
lorida 

449 H
eron A

ve 
N

aples 
F

L 
34108 

I A
ndrew

 S
cott 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5.09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualily 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

K
 A

 
A

 
R

eport for 2208 
: R

egistered Pharm
acy 

S
ort O

rder: 
D

ate 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
—

 
P

aD
e 18of47 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
a
t
e
 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

4
9
5
1
7
 

0
7
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

V
e
s
s
e
l
o
v
 

K
i
r
i
l
l
 

1
0
/
2
5
/
1
 9
8
5
 

U
n
i
t
e
d
 P
h
a
r
m
a
c
y
 

3
9
5
1
 

N
J
 
H
a
v
e
r
h
i
l
l
 R
d
 

W
est P

alm
 B

each 
F

L 

#120-121 
3
3
4
1
7
 

R
P
T
 

4
9
5
1
8
 

0
7
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

T
e
r
r
y
 
D
e
b
r
a
 A
n
n
 

0
1
/
1
3
/
1
9
6
4
 

P
u
b
l
i
x
 S
u
p
e
r
 M
a
r
k
e
t
 

8
7
8
0
 
B
o
y
n
t
o
r
i
 B
e
a
c
h
 
B
l
v
d
 

B
o
y
n
t
o
n
 B
e
a
c
h
 
F
L
 
3
3
4
7
2
 

I
n
c
.
 

R
P
T
 

4
9
5
1
9
 

0
7
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

D
i
a
z
 
Y
u
l
i
e
n
 

0
1
/
1
9
/
1
9
9
0
 

O
t
h
e
r
 

E
v
e
r
e
s
t
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 

l
8
6
5
A
S
w
2
6
S
t
r
e
e
t
 

M
i
a
m
,
 

F
L 

33175 

R
P

T
 

49520 
07/22/2013 

U
r
b
o
n
 
E
m
i
l
y
 

1
0
/
1
5
/
1
9
9
2
 

T
a
r
g
e
t
 C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
 

1
0
4
0
1
 H
w
y
 4
4
1
 

L
e
e
s
b
u
r
g
 

F
L 34788 

E
lizabeth 

R
P

T
 

49521 
07/22/2013 

S
tanner, T

yana 
12/28/1979 

O
m

inicare, 
Inc. 

4150 C
hurch S

treet 
S

anford, F
L 

32771 
R

enee June 
R

P
T

 
49522 

07/22/2013 
M

arquez R
om

ero, 
04/15/1990 

5900 N
 W

 183 S
t 

M
iam

i G
ardens, F

L 
33015 

A
relysD

 
R

P
T

 
49523 

07/22/2013 
: T

herm
ezi, T

yrrell 
02/1 0/1 982 

2415 
S

 F
raser S

t 
G

eorgetow
n, S

C
 

29440 
Jam

ar 
R

P
T

 
49524 

07/23/2013 
M

ckinnon, Lenethreia 
05/20/1983 

3355 C
laire Lane #911 

Jacksonville, 
F

L 
32223 

Jayvon 
R
P
T
 

4
9
5
2
5
 

0
7
/
2
3
/
2
0
1
3
 

L
o
p
e
z
,
 
M
a
r
i
a
 

0
7
/
2
2
/
1
9
6
7
 

8
5
9
W
 L
u
m
s
d
e
n
 
R
o
a
d
 

B
r
a
n
d
o
n
,
 
F
L
 
3
3
5
1
1
 

R
P
T
 

49526 
07/23/2013 

D
u
b
i
a
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
t
o
p
h
e
r
 

1
1
/
0
1
/
1
9
8
5
 

6
3
0
 

N
. M

aitland 
R

 

D
aniel 

R
P

T
 

49527 
07/23/2013 

W
alker, C

helsie 
09/13/1991 

W
al-M

art 
4770 C

olonial 
B

lvd 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33966 

S
um

m
er 

R
P

T
 

49528 
07/23/2013 

V
anlaningham

, 
11/18/1972 

O
ther 

S
anford B

row
n Institute 

6711 6711 
M

eade S
t 

H
ollyw

ood, F
L 

33024 
R

ichard John 
R

P
T

 
49529 

07/23/2013 
T

hreat, M
onica 

11/13/1974 
O

ther 
C

oncorde C
areer C

ollege 
4795 N

w
 113 T

er 
S

unrise, F
L 

33323 
E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
 

R
P

T
 

49530 
07/23/2013 

T
orres 

Lisa 
02/20/1 992 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

15800 N
w

 27 C
ourt 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33054 

R
P

T
 

49531 
07/23/2013 

D
ixon 

R
eginald 

03/02/1963 
702 N

ew
 Y

ork D
r 

P
ensacola 

F
L 

32505 

R
P

T
 

49532 
07/23/2013 

M
artiriezM

endoza, 
04/29/1985 

. 
3501 S

w
 87T

h A
ve 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33165 
O

raince 

R
P
T
 

49533 
07/23/2013 

D
enis, S

erge 
05/27/1 978 

150 W
est C

arnino R
eal 

B
oca R

aton,F
L 

33432 

R
P

T
 

49534 
07/23/2013 

A
rm

stead 
C

Jon M
 

07/19/1991 
3407 

10T
h A

venue N
 

P
alm

 S
prings F

L 
33461 

R
P

T
 

49535 
07/23/2013 

O
rtiz 

Joseph A
 

02/01/1995 
6210 F

rost D
r 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33625 

R
P

T
 

49536 
07/23/2013 

V
ilm

ar 
W

idlen 
07/1 8/1 990 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
535 Jaeger D

rive 
D

elray B
each 

F
L 

33444 

R
P

T
 

49537 
07/23/2013 

H
arris Joseph P

erry 
10/06/1 990 

2738 G
rand 

B
ay C

ourt 
N

avarre 
F

L 
32566 

R
P

T
 

49538 
07/23/2013 

W
orkm

an 
S

tacie Lee 
10/28/1972 

W
algreens 

7422 Loblolly B
ay T

rail 
B

radenton 
F

L 
34202 

R
P

T
 

49539 
07/23/2013 

P
ereira, Jerrie A

leana 
11/14/1974 

6194 G
ulf S

hore P
kw

y 
G

ulf S
hores, A

L 
36542 

U
nitG

4 
R

P
T

 
4
9
5
4
0
 

0
7
/
2
3
/
2
0
1
3
 

M
a
u
p
i
n
 

V
ictoria Lynn 

08/13/1970 
6632 H

ertz S
treet 

P
ensacola 

F
L 

32526 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11.21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical 

A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
L

icense R
eport for 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnidan 

D
aIc 

1 
7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

—
 

P
ac,e l9of47 

Processed: 9112/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
a
t
e
 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49541 
07/23/2013 

: F
ernandes, Jocelyn 

04/22/1995 
572 B

itterw
ood C

t 
K

issim
m

ee, F
L 

34743 

B
arbosa 

R
P

T
 

49542 
07/23/2013 

G
onzalez, E

lizabeth 
11/22/1978 

6500 
E

. R
ogers C

ircle#A
 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33487 

Y
aniz 

R
P

T
 

49543 
07/23/2013 

O
ldread 

M
ichelle 

12/26/1986 
5609 G

overnm
ent D

rive 
G

ulf B
reeze 

F
L 

32563 

A
flesandra 

R
P

T
 

49544 
07/23/2013 

Law
rence Janica 

07/25/1982 
4530 Lantana R

oad 
Lake W

orth 
F

L 
33463 

R
am

ona 
- 

R
P

T
 

49545 
07/24/2013 

G
arcia Y

anisleidi 
11/18/1987 

910 S
tate S

treet 
Lake W

orth 
F

L 
33461 

R
P

T
 

49546 
07/24/2013 

M
atos 

A
shley M

arie 
07/21/1994 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

3841 S
afflow

er T
err 

O
viedo 

F
L 32766 

R
P

T
 

49547 
07/24/2013 

H
askew

 Jacqueline 
09/30/1966 

3625W
 G

andyB
lvd 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33611 

S
uzanne 

R
P

T
 

49548 
07/24/2013 

R
eyes G

arcia 
Lisset 

A
 

1 
P

harm
acy 

265 N
e 24 st 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33137 

R
P

T
 

49549 
07/24/2013 

A
ppiahene 

S
am

uel 
01/27/1 994 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

3030 E
 

S
em

oran B
lvd 

A
popka 

F
L 

32703 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 

R
P

T
 

49550 
07/24/2013 

D
avis, A

shton 
11/04/1993 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

7830 Land 0 Lakes B
lvd 

Land 0 Lakes, 
F

L 
34638 

S
tanford 

Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49551 
07/24/2013 

S
turgess, M

ichelle 
08/24/1977 

W
inn D

ixie 
1028 S

 3R
d S

treet 
Jacksonville B

each, F
L 

R
ene 

32250 

R
P

T
 

49552 
07/24/2013 

B
alIek 

A
lexander 

05/27/1 993 
O
t
h
e
r
 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

24019 M
adaca Lane B

ldg 
P

ort C
harlotte 

F
L 

33954 

J
o
s
e
p
h
 

#2419 
l
4
A
p
t
l
O
l
 

R
P
T
 

49553 
0
7
/
2
4
/
2
0
1
3
 

T
h
o
r
n
d
i
k
e
.
 M

elissa 
10/26/1970 

P
u
b
l
i
x
 S

uper M
arket, 

5186 U
s
 H

w
y 98 

S
.
 

L
a
k
e
l
a
n
d
,
 F

L 
33812 

F
r
a
n
c
e
s
 

Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49554. 
07/24/2013 

P
avicic, M

arino 
12/08/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1020 1020 85T
h A

ve 
N

 
S

aint P
etersburg, 

F
L 

A
pt 218 

R
P

T
 

49555 
07/24/2013 

B
ell, T

headosha 
10/08/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark - 

2575 O
akdal S

t S
 

S
t P

etersburg, F
L 

33705 

F
elisha 

R
P

T
 

49556 
07/24/2013 

P
rice, T

iffany M
arie 

04/30/1 988 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
5517 C

r 579 
S

effner, F
L 33584 

R
P

T
 

49557 
07/24/2013 

H
arripersaud, 

11/20/1992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
605 M

anatee A
ve. 

H
olm

es B
each, F

L 
34217 

S
tephanie Lisa 

R
P

T
 

49558 
07/24/2013 

Jung 
S

am
anta S

ylvia 
10/02/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

7851 115T
h S

t 
N

 
S

em
inole 

F
L 

33772 

R
P

T
 

49559 
07/24/2013 

T
oussaint, Lovensk 

08/11/1 990 
W

al-M
art 

3201 E
ast P

alm
 D

r 
B

oynton B
each, F

L 
33435 

R
em

y 

R
P

T
 

49560 
07/24/2013 

T
ensley 

E
rika 

07/07/1989 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
736 13T

h A
ve S

outh 
S

t P
etersburg 

F
L 

33701 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 

R
P

T
 

49561 
07/24/2013 

S
anders, A

ndrea 
06/22/1990 

M
anatee T

echnical 
6403 S

e P
ine Island R

d 
A

rcadia, 
F

L 
34266 

Leilani 
Institute 

.. 

R
P

T
 

49562 
07/24/2013 

T
heodore 

G
eraldine 

11/17/1985 
W

algreens 
9498N

w
7T

hA
ve 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33150 

R
P

T
 

49563 
07/24/2013 

B
ojaxhi 

K
risti 

04/1 5/1 990 
30535 U

s H
ighw

ay 19 N
 

P
alm

 H
arbor 

F
L 

34684 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11 2141 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of Q

uolity A
szurcnce 

C
O

M
F

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
R

eport for 2208 
R

egistered Pharm
acy T

cchiiiciaii 
O

viginal Licensc D
ate 

I 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 
P

age 20 of 47 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

1 A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

R
P

T
 

49564 
49565 

07/24/2013 
S

hinn, K
athy G

inn 
04/05/1 970 

W
algreens 

3014 M
idw

ay R
d 

919 B
rookview

 Lane 

P
lant C

ity, 
F

L 
33565 

R
ockledge 

F
L 

32955 
07/24/2013 

R
obillard 

S
usan Lynn 

09/06/1969 
W

algreens 

R
P

T
 

49566 

R
P

T
 

49567 

07/24/2013 
B

row
n, K

atia 
02/11/1987 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
T

angorn S
treet 

26101 M
eadow

 B
reeze 

Ln. 

O
rlando, F

L 
32825 

Leesburg, F
L 

34748 
07/24/2013 

C
alkins, 

E
van C

harles 

R
P

T
 

49568 
07/24/2013 

K
epler, T

hom
as 

06/28/1 992 
9223 83R

d S
treet N

orth 
Largo, F

L 
33777 

V
incent 

R
P

T
 

49569 
07/24/2013 

Y
oung, Joshua D

avid 
04/10/1990 

W
algreens 

3340 C
anoe C

reek R
d 

S
t. C

loud, F
L 34772 

R
P

T
 

49570 
07/24/2013 

M
onsalve, Juanita 

05/06/1 993 
8330 M

arket S
treet 

B
radenton, 

F
L 

34202 

M
aria 

R
P

T
 

49571 
07/24/2013 

Jackson, A
lexander 

11/03/1990 
2256W

 N
ine M

ile R
d 

P
ensacola, 

F
L 

32534 

B
ishop 

- 

R
P

T
 

49572 
07/24/2013 

P
rossick. A

shley 
02/16/1988 

2419 T
hom

as D
r 

P
anam

a C
ity B

each, F
L 

S
uzanne 

32408 

R
P

T
 

49573 
07/24/2013 

V
uong, N

ih 
12/05/1 988 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

23208 F
ront B

each R
oad 

P
anam

a C
ity B

each, 
F

L 
32413 

- R
P

T
 

49574 
07/24/2013 

W
atson, S

am
antha 

ó3/04/1987 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3602 S

pring Lake R
d 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32210 

C
hristine 

R
P

T
 

49575 
07/24/2013 

E
chevarria, M

aria 
09/17/1987 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

13170 A
tlantic B

lvd 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32225 

G
um

bayan 

R
P

T
 

49576 
07/24/2013 

C
arvajat, Jacqueline 

01/03/1971 
O

ther 
P

rofessional T
raining 

11190 S
w

 107T
h S

t. #305 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33176 

C
enters 

R
P

T
 

49577 
07/24/2013 

D
eneus, Jenny 

08/05/1992 
6013 1S

t S
t. E

ast 
B

radenton, F
L 

34203 

Jackson 
R

P
T

 
49578 

07/24/2013 
H

ussein 
M

unir 
07/02/1 967 

O
ther 

G
uilford T

echnical 
1125 P

ointe C
ove A

pt 
Lake M

ary 
F

L 
32746 

S
ultanali 

C
om

m
unity C

ollege 
103 

R
P

T
 

49579 
07/24/2013 

: A
yala, C

laudia 
10/26/1992 

500 S
 11T

h S
treet 

Lake W
ales, F

L 
33853 

Z
uleide 

R
P

T
 

49580 
07/24/2013 

A
dam

son 
Jonathan 

05/24/1 992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
103 

103 M
issouri A

ve 
Lynn H

aven 
F

L 
32444 

lan 

R
P

T
 

49581 
07/24/2013 

D
ean 

Jordan M
ark 

05/01/1 992 
5424 4T

h S
t C

t E
 

B
radenton 

F
L 

34203 

R
P

T
 

49582 
07/25/2013 

N
icolas B

ertrand 
07/30/1 973 

41 C
arver S

treet 
B

elle G
lade 

F
L 

33430 

M
arie M

ajorie 

R
P

T
 

49583 
07/25/2013 

M
artin 

T
ara Z

oeann 
01/31/1 984 

24 
N

 Lim
e A

ve 
S

arasota 
F

L 
34237 

R
P

T
 

49584 
07/25/2013 

M
anila 

A
lexandria 

10/1 7/1 988 
8745 S

 
R

 
54 

N
ew

 P
ort R

ichey 
F

L 

K
athleen 

R
P

T
 

49585 
07/25/2013 

M
achado S

antana, 
03/30/1975 

3360 N
W

 18T
h T

err. 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33125 

M
arianela 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
O

l 3 11:21:41 
O

N
D

 

02/24/1980 
C

vs C
arem

ark 



D
ivision of 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort 
D

atc 

I 
. 

—
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Page 

2
1
 
o
f
4
7
 

P
r
o
c
e
s
s
e
d
:
 
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
3
 
1
1
:
2
2
:
3
7
A
M
 

R
a
n
k
 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

4
9
5
8
6
 

0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

N
u
n
e
z
 M
e
r
c
a
d
o
 

0
1
/
2
5
/
1
 9
9
3
 

3
4
8
1
 S
w
 1
5
2
N
d
 
P
l
a
c
e
 

M
i
a
m
i
 
F
L
 
3
3
1
8
5
 

C
e
s
a
r
 A

ugusto 
R

P
T

 
49587 

07/25/2013 
N

am
 

A
llen F

ranklin 
08/27/1 993 

1
4
8
5
1
 S

tate R
oad 52 

H
udson 

F
L 

34669 

R
P

T
 

49588 
07/25/2013 

H
erchenroder 

06/27/1 993 
T
a
r
g
e
t
 G

orporation 
1201 W

p B
all B

lvd 
S

anford 
F

L 
32771 

N
athan Jam

es 
- 

R
P

T
 

49589 
07/25/2013 

R
ivera Y

oung 
05/22/1977 

V
irginia C

ollege 
8528 S

tar Leaf C
t 

J
a
c
k
s
o
n
v
i
l
l
e
 

F
L 

32210 

S
hannon R

enee 
Jacksonville 

R
P

T
 

49590 
07/25/2013 

Y
oder A

m
anda Lee 

08/11/1 977 
V
i
r
g
i
n
i
a
 C

ollege 
5 

l
v
e
y
 Lane 

F
lagler B

each 
F

L 
32136 

Jacksonville 

R
P

T
 

49591 
07/25/2013 

R
ogers, V

asheta 
V

irginia C
ollege - 

716 N
orth 10T

h A
ve 

: P
ensacola, 

F
L 

32501 

N
ecola 

P
ensacola 

. 

R
P

T
 

49592 
07/25/2013 

F
lint, A

ngela N
icole 

12/21/1983 
. 

4196 S
kates C

ircle 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33905 

R
P

T
 

49593 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

G
om

ez, C
arlos 

05/1 8/1 995 
2
7
3
8
 C

orybrooke Lane 
K

issim
m

ee, 
F

L 
34744 

A
n
d
r
e
s
 

R
P

T
 

49594 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

G
raham

, P
am

ela A
nn 

04/10/1956 
1802 M

ourning D
ove Lane 

Jacksonville B
each, F

L 
32250 

R
P

T
 

49595 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

G
ordon, M

argaret 
11/21/1990 

265 S
unset D

rive 
B

rooksville, F
L 

34601 

June 
. 

R
P

T
 

49596 
07/25/2013 

A
lvarez, S

anta 
10/14/1988 

. 
. 

7985 A
irport P

ulling R
o
a
d
 

N
a
p
l
e
s
,
 F
L
 
3
4
1
0
9
 

K
a
t
h
e
r
y
n
 

R
P

T
 

49597 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

F
inney, C

arol A
 

01/25/1 944 
8
8
0
8
 B

each B
lvd 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32216 

R
P

T
 

49598 
07/25/2013 

P
erez, E

velin 
09/14/1971 

H
ialeah A

dult E
ducation 

561 
E

 26 S
t 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33013 

=
 

C
enter 

,. 
. 

R
P

T
 

49599 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

H
icka, A

nnabel A
lexis 

03/16/1992 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida - 
3618 E

ast G
rant S

treet 
O

rlando, F
L 32812 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
. 

. 
. 

R
P

T
 

49600 
07/25/2013 

E
velyn, N

a'D
ieya 

12/22/1992 
. O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1832 H
aw

kins A
ve 

S
anford, F

L 
32771 

S
hiniece 

R
P

T
 

49601 
07/25/2013 

C
ollazo 

S
ilvia 

08/30/1 972 
O

ther 
H

eritage 
Institute 

3677 C
entral A

ve 
S

uite A
 

F
t 

M
yers 

F
L 

33901 

R
P

T
 

49602 
07/25/2013 

B
atista 

R
olando 

07/25/1950 
O

ther 
F

ortis C
ollege M

iam
i 

8025 N
w

 7 
S
t
 A

pt #102 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33126 

R
P

T
 

49603 
07/25/2013 

G
ray 

N
aketa T

a 
04/03/1 981 

2545 N
orth R

oad 
C

ottondale 
F

L 
32431 

S
haw

 
. 

R
P

T
 

49604 
07/25/2013 

R
odriguez C

apeles, 
11/26/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1569 R
oble Ln 

. 

D
e
l
 R

isco, K
evin 

06/02/1994 
: 

.
 

7605W
33R

d C
o
u
r
t
 

H
i
a
l
e
a
h
,
 F

L 
33018 

R
P

T
 

49606 
0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

D
a
w
d
 

G
iovanni 

12/22/1992 
C
v
s
 C

arem
ark 

2875 M
 2875 M

a
j
e
s
t
i
c
 

G
reen C

ove S
prings 

F
L 

O
aks Lane 2875 M

a
j
e
s
t
i
c
 

32043 
O
a
k
L
a
n
e
 

R
P

T
 

4
9
6
0
7
 

0
7
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

D
e
l
i
s
e
,
 Jhouleine 

06/04/1992 
O

ther 
M

ci 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 O

f 
3940 N

w
 30T

h T
e
r
r
 A

pt4 
Lauder-Lakes, F

L 
33309 

T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
3 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of Q

uclity 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

k A
 () 

for 2208 
R

egistered Pharniacy T
echniciaui 

D
ate 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
—

 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 
—

- 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49608 
07/25/2013 

G
allagher, K

eenan 
11/17/1981 

W
al-M

art 
17861 S

outh U
s H

ighw
ay 

S
um

m
erfield, F

L 
34491 

Jam
es 

441 

R
P

T
 

49609 
07/26/2013 

T
ubella, N

orisleny 
03/01/1990 

6709 P
recourt D

r 
O

rlando, F
L 

32809 

R
P

T
 

49610 
07/26/2013 

G
utzm

ore-S
tew

art, 
10/24/1987 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
7030 S

w
 27T

h S
t 

M
iram

ar, F
L 

33023 

Jessica P
atricia 

R
P

T
 

49611 
07/26/2013 

A
ktel 

S
elim

 Y
etkin 

10/13/1969 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2175 M

ain S
treet 

D
unedin 

F
L 

34698 

R
P

T
 

49612 
07/26/2013 

C
rutchley, John E

ric 
06/26/1991 

: C
vs C

arem
ark 

2621 B
erm

uda Lake D
rive 

B
randon 

F
L 

33510 

R
P

T
 

49613 
07/26/2013 

G
elinas 

D
onna 

08/1 7/1 979 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
25937 B

loom
sbury C

ourt 
Land 0 Lakes 

F
L 

34639 

R
P

T
 

49614 
07/26/2013 

D
onatiu G

om
ez 

09/26/1 988 
O

ther 
N

ational U
niversity 

3459 P
atterson H

eights D
r 

H
aines C

ity 
F

L 
33844 

A
relis 

C
ollege 

R
P

T
 

49615 
07/26/2013 

H
ernaridez 

K
yle 

10/20/1988 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
4327 F

aw
n M

eadow
s C

ir 
C

lerm
ont 

F
L 

34711 

R
P

T
 

49616 
07126/2013 

S
curry 

C
hristopher 

10/03/1988 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
3950 Lora S

t 
A

pt 
208 

F
ort M

yers 
F

L 
33916 

Jerom
e 

R
P

T
 

49617 
07/26/2013 

F
arm

er, E
m

m
anuel 

10/13/1990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
7431 A

tlantic B
lvd 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32211 

S
aah 

R
P

T
 

49618 
07/26/2013 

B
ivens, C

assandra 
12/14/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

4824 F
oxrun 

Lakeland, F
L 33813 

M
arie 

R
P

T
 

49619 
07/26/2013 

H
ill 

M
ark D

avid 
09/22/1984 

W
al M

art 
1590 D

unlaw
ton A

ve 
P

ort O
range 

F
L 

32127 

R
P

T
 

49620 
07/26/2013 

R
icho 

A
licia R

ertee 
02/1 9/1 981 

W
al 

M
art 

131 
D

onna S
t 

C
ordova 

S
C

 
29039 

R
P

T
 

49621 
07/29/2013 

Lugo A
lexia Y

asm
in 

07/04/1994 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
10717 A

yrshire D
rive 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33626 

R
F

T
 

49622 
07/29/2013 

M
ontes 

G
abriel 

08/28/1986 
O

ther 
B

arry U
niversity 

1109 E
 H

allandale B
each 

H
ailandale B

each 
F

L 

B
lvd 

33009 

R
P

T
 

49623 
07/29/2013 

P
inero 

Y
em

lis 
03/09/1974 

O
ther 

F
ortis C

ollege 
3020 S

w
 96 A

ve 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33165 

R
P

T
 

49624 
07/29/2013 

M
iller Jennifer N

icole 
09/26/1985 

W
algreens 

5730 E
den F

alls P
lace 

A
pollo B

each 
F

L 
33572 

R
P

T
 

49625 
07/29/2013 

M
iller P

aris 
12/26/1990 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

1044 N
w

 52 S
treet 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33127 

S
hanquelle 

R
P

T
 

49626 
07/29/2013 

M
oham

ed 
F

arah 
12/28/1990 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

14363 S
w

 163 T
err 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33177 

R
eiana 

R
P

T
 

49627 
07/29/2013 

G
ust, Linda D

iana M
s 

05/19/1967 
W

algreens 
4174 H

ighland Loop 
N

ew
 P

ort R
ichey, F

L 
34652 

R
P

T
 

49628 
07/29/2013 

P
om

ales M
assey 

12/23/1984 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1406 A
stor C

om
m

ons 
B

randon 
F

L 
33511 

Joanny Liz 
B

randon C
am

pus 
P

lace A
pt 301 

. 
. 

. 

R
P

T
 

49629 
07/29/2013 

R
eed 

Jaim
e Lynne 

11/01/1978 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1330 Jefferson A

ve A
pt B

 
O

range P
ark F

L 
32065 

R
P

T
 

49630 
07/29/2013 

R
ivera D

arelys 
11/28/1973 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

7445 Indian 
C

reek D
rive 

M
iam

i B
each 

F
L 

33141 

R
P

T
 

49631 
07/29/2013 

P
ierre, A

lonzo 
07/27/1 992 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

16489 S
w

 28 C
t 

M
iram

ar, F
L 

33027 
Inc. 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
3 11:21.41 

O
N

O
 



D
ivision of Q

uo!ity 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting Systeni 

k A
 

N
ew

 License R
cpoi't for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort O
rdci: 

D
atc 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 

______________ 

—
 

P
aoe 23 of 47 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49632 
07/29/2013 

R
am

irez D
iaz, Y

anela 
12/21/1979 

F
lorida E

ducation Institute 
606 S

w
 96T

h C
ourt 

M
iarm

, F
L 

33174 

R
P

T
 

49633 
07/29/2013 

Janz 
M

eghan Lynn 
05/07/1 992 

W
algreens 

2806 Larkin S
t C

 
P

ensacola 
F

L 
32514 

R
P

T
 

'34 
P

aschke 
U

c41 
S

outh 
F

l 

A
nn 

R
P

T
 

49635 
07/29/2013 

T
ran 

A
nthony D

uong 
11/08/1993 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1008 1008 S
w

 115T
h 

G
ainesville 

F
L 

32607 

R
P

T
 

49636 
07/29/2013 

M
ccray, K

eith N
eal 

06/04/1975 
O

ther 
N

ew
 E

ra 
661 S

w
l58T

h T
err 

. 
P

em
broke P

ines, 
F

L 
33027 

R
P

T
 

49637 
07/29/2013 

K
ussrath, Louella 

11/09/1963 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
21094 7T

h A
venue 

C
udjoe K

ey, F
L 

33042 

Lorraine 
Inc. 

. 
. 

R
P

T
 

49638 
07/29/2013 

M
enendez, M

aria 
09/01/1965 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
2245 S

w
 22N

d A
ve 

D
elray B

each, F
L 

33445 

M
agdalena 

#S
 

104 

R
P

T
 

49639 
07/29/2013 

R
oss, D

ebbie A
nn 

07/28/1 987 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
540 S

 H
unt C

lub B
lvd 

A
popka, F

L 
32703 

Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49640 
07/29/2013 

Leon, S
ergio E

steban 
11/06/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

5044 F
orest 

H
ill B

lvd 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33415 

R
P

T
 

49641 
07/29/2013 

N
guyen 

V
ivian H

avi 
01/29/1 991 

T
arget C

orporation 
386 H

aversham
 R

oad 
D

eltona 
F

L 
32725 

R
P

T
 

49642 
07/29/2013 

Lebrun 
V

irginia 
R

uth 
04/26/1990 

T
arget C

orporation 
1201 W

 P
 B

all B
lvd 

S
anford 

F
L 

32771 

R
P

T
 

49643 
07/29/2013 

M
itchell 

P
atrick R

oss 
09/28/1986 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

3644 C
oolidge C

t 
T

allahassee 
F

L 
32311 

R
P

T
 

49644 
07/29/2013 

P
erez, S

igfredo 
03/19/1960 

: 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 

1702 W
est A

von C
t 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33603 
T

am
pa 

R
P

T
 

49645 
07/29/2013 

P
erez, M

arilyn 
09/02/1 977 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

10315 W
oodw

ard W
inds 

O
rlando, F

L 
32827 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
D

r 
. 

R
P

T
 

49646 
07/29/2013 

P
ergrossi, 

06/15/1987 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida - 
3515 3515 S

w
 39T

h B
lvd 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32608 

C
hristopher Jon 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
A

pt 25B
 

R
P

T
 

49647 
07/29/2013 

R
ey 

K
aren 

10/14/1989 
F

lorida E
ducation Institute 

13951 S
w

 39T
h S

t 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33175 

R
P

T
 

49648 
07/29/2013 

P
ereira 

Jannalee 
10/14/1990 

O
m

inicare 
Inc 

1952 P
eoria S

t 
D

eltona 
F

L 
32728 

R
P

T
 

. 
49649 

07/29/2013 
S

ucharski, N
icole 

. 10/29/1991 
O

ther 
P

ointe M
ed P

harm
acy 

1316 O
aklanding Ln 

F
lem

ing Island, F
L 

32003 

Lynn 
. 

. 
. 

. 

. 

R
P

T
 

49650 
07/29/2013 

M
ortell, E

lena 
.03/03/1975 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida - 

8042 C
haucer D

rive 
W

eeki W
achee, F

L 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
34607 

R
P

T
 

49651 
07/29/2013 

O
quendo, Juan Jr 

06/30/1994 
W

aigreens 
4113 C

onstantine Loop 
W

esley C
hapel, F

L 
33543 

R
P

T
 

49652 
07/29/2013 

S
nyder 

M
ichael 

11/12/1986 
M

iam
i D

ade C
ollege 

9760 S
w

 148 A
ve 

M
iam

i 
F

L 33196 

Joseph 

R
P

T
 

49653 
07/29/2013 

R
evels 

P
atriciaA

nn 
03/17/1981 

P
iersoncC

om
m

unity 
112E

 
F

irstA
ve 

P
ierson 

F
L 

32180 

R
P

T
 

49654 
07/29/2013 

Y
antek 

K
ate A

shley 
04/16/1 988 

T
arget C

orporation 
2412 50T

h S
treet C

t E
 

P
alm

etto 
F

L 
34221 

R
P

T
 

49655 
07/29/2013 

V
illanueva 

Julio Jr 
07/06/1 956 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

18387 F
ern R

oad 
F

ort M
yers 

F
L 

33967 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx151 5:09/i212013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

A
ssurcr.ce 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

A
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 
: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
IV

 
7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

—
 

P
a'e '4 of 47 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 
- 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49656 
07/29/2013 

W
ashington, Javia 

09/18/1989 
Lively T

echnical C
enter 

3106 Layla S
t 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32303 

R
enee 

R
P

T
 

49657 
07/29/2013 

U
ddin, Jasim

 
09/01/1 980 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh P

ark C
ir. 

O
rlando, 

R
P

T
 

49658 
07/30/2013 

M
arrero 

N
ayla 

11/1 8/1 985 
2700W

 F
lagler S

t 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33135 

R
P

T
 

49659 
07/30/2013 

P
atterson 

B
enjam

in 
09/19/1988 

6716 C
onetta D

r 
S

arasota 
F

L 
34243 

F
loyd 

—
 

- 
- 

R
P

T
 

49660 
07/30/2013 

U
dvardi 

M
ary 

04/09/1 947 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
17925 S

e 100T
h T

errace 
S

um
m

erfield 
F

L 
34491 

C
atherine 

R
P

T
 

49661 
07/30/2013 

S
ailes 

Ileana S
hakira 

10/17/1985 
M

anatee T
echnical 

2402 9T
h A

ve F
 

B
radenton 

F
L 

34208 

Institute 

R
P

T
 

49662 
07/30/2013 

C
ruz, A

lbano 
05/20/1990 

3l33C
ck 

F
L 

33025 

R
P

T
 

49663 
07/30/2013 

G
enhold, B

obbie 
:08/23/1986 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

3611 A
tlantis D

rive 
H

oliday, F
L 

34691 

R
enae 

.. 
... 

R
P

T
 

49664 
07/30/2013 

R
oberts, R

asheda C
 

04/12/1991 
. C

vs C
arem

ark 
686 G

lades R
oad 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

R
P

T
 

49665 
07/30/2013 

F
rederick, A

nitra 
06/06/1981 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2428 W
illow

 A
ve 

S
anford, 

F
L 

32771 

Y
vette 

R
P

T
 

. 
49666 

07/30/2013 
R

edding,T
heresa 

03/10/1965 
U

niv O
f F

lorida 
7200 S

w
8A

ve #61 
G

ainesville, F
L 

32607 

A
nn 

. 

R
P

T
 

49667 
07/30/2013 

H
ale 

P
enelope M

arie 
11/03/1974 

O
ther 

C
areer C

ollege N
orthern 

302 
S

 S
pring G

arden 
D

eland 
F

L 
32720 

N
evada 

A
pt# 02 

R
P

T
 

49668 
07/30/2013 

R
ocha, V

anessa 
12/30/1992 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

2238 M
onroe S

treet A
pt. 

H
ollyw

ood, 
F

L 
33021 

307 

R
P

T
 

49669 
07/30/2013 

C
hachere, E

rica 
10/09/1988 

. O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

3267 E
lkcam

 B
lvd 

P
ort C

harlotte, F
L 

33952 

E
lizabeth 

R
P

T
 

49670 
07/30/2013 

C
rooks 

R
oni Leigh 

09/21/1 992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
11110 A

tlantic B
lvd 1004 

Jacksonville 
F

L 
32225 

R
P

T
 

49671 
T

ookes, A
ndrea 

11/23/1985 
V

irginia C
ollege - 

303 A
rabian C

t#1 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32216 

N
icole 

. 
Jacksonville 

R
P

T
 

49672 
07/30/2013 

S
helton, A

m
i 

03/05/1988 
. W

algreens 
3906 B

arrel P
alm

 W
ay 

P
lant C

ity, F
L 

33566 

C
hristine 

R
P

T
 

49673 
07/30/2013 

R
eyno 

K
elly C

hristine 
08/31/1986 

O
ther 

E
verestlB

randon/764 
4701 C

hrista C
t A

pt 341 
T

am
pa 

F
L 

33614 

R
P

T
 

49674 
07/30/2013 

S
hikha, S

hahela 
01/01/1 986 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

170 B
rooks R

oad 
N

orth F
ort M

yers, F
L 

A
kter 

33917 

R
P

T
 

49675 
07/30/2013 

F
ernandez-G

onzalez, 
10/06/1991 

O
ther 

B
linn C

ollege 
.2302D

e Lee S
t 

: B
ryan, T

X
 

77802 

K
im

berly 

R
P

T
 

49676 
07/30/2013 

S
im

m
ons, Jacqueline 

09/21/1989 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
14702 71S

t P
lace N

orth 
Loxahatchee, F

L 
33470 

N
icole 

Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49677 
07/30/2013 

D
augherty 

03/01/1 984 
520 

S
 

F
ederal H

w
y 

B
oca R

aton F
L 

33432 

C
hristopherW

ayne 
-- 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkgjpt_Iic p_dxl5l 5:09/12/201311 :21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

N
 A

 
L

icense R
epoit for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy 
O

riginal L
iccnsc 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Paoe 

sf47 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 
- 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D
U
 P
r
o
v
i
d
e
r
 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

R
P

T
 

49678 
07/30/2013 

H
osein 

N
adeera 

03/14/1 990 
686 G

lades R
oad 

B
oca R

aton 
F

L 
33431 

K
arlene 

R
P

T
 

49679 
07/31/2013 

Land 
P

am
elaA

nne 
08/14/1949 

4840S
 

T
am

iam
iT

rall 
S

arasota 
F

L 34231 

R
P

T
 

49680 
07/31/2013 

D
avis 

B
renda 

07/01/1 969 
7477 F

arm
ers R

d 
P

ensacola 
F

L 
32526 

Jeanette 
R

P
T

 
49681 

07/31/2013 
=

 D
elaney, D

enise 
03/27/1956 

. 
11251 

80T
h A

ve A
pt 201 

R
P

T
 

49682 
07/31/2013 

O
neal 

B
reanna 

01/13/1993 
3434 6T

h A
ve N

orth 
S

aint P
etersburg 

F
L 

S
hariae 

337 13 

R
P

T
 

49683 
07/31/2013 

Lem
oruades 

R
yan 

02/20/1 989 
- 

22829 S
tate 

R
oad 54 

Land 0 
Lakes 

F
L 

34639 

C
hristopher 

R
P

T
 

49684 
07/31/2013 

F
ields 

Leo W
alter 

12/09/1989 
11912 H

arbour C
ove D

r S
 

Jacksonville 
F

L 
32225 

R
P

T
 

49685 
07/31/2013 

M
artinez Y

ohandris 
08/23/1 994 

6201 
N

 G
rady A

ve 
T

am
pa 

F
L 

33616 

R
P

T
 

49686 
07/31/2013 

B
ush 

C
arm

en C
ribbs 

07/27/1975 
5200 S

w
 34T

h S
tr 

G
ainesville 

F
L 

32608 

R
P

T
 

49687 
07/31/2013 

P
aul 

D
aw

n K
elli 

05/13/1972 
1478 W

est G
ranada B

lvd 
O

rm
ond B

each 
F

L 
32174 

R
P

T
 

49688 
07/31/2013 

R
aven 

Jathiya lhsan 
11/01/1982 

K
ennesaw

 S
tate U

niv 
299 S

ierra R
d 

H
avana 

F
L 

32333 

R
P

T
 

49689 
07/31/2013 

Lopez 
V

ictor 
11/18/1992 

52 E
ast P

alm
 D

rive 
F

lorida C
ity 

F
L 

33034 

R
P

T
 

49690 
07/31/2013 

C
artes, Johany 

05/1 9/1 982 
8250 M

ills D
r 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33183 

M
ichelle 

R
P

T
 

49691 
07/31/2013 

T
aylor A

shley B
rooke 

05/03/1990 
S

am
s C

lub 
300 

N
 C

attlem
an R

d 
S

arasota 
F

L 
34232 

R
P

T
 

49692 
07/31/2013 

R
athburn, M

ary 
09/14/1956 

W
algreens 

3700 34T
h S

treet N
orth 

S
aint P

etersburg, 
F

L 

Lucille 
33713 

R
P

T
 

49693 
07/31/2013 

V
illarreal 

A
na M

aria 
11/05/1 983 

W
algreens 

2209 D
elightful D

r 
R

uskin 
F

L 
33570 

R
P

T
 

49694 
. 

07/31/2013 
V

aldes, A
ilen M

elissa 
03/16/1993 

S
im

farose P
harm

acy 
10016 P

ines B
lvd 

P
em

broke P
ines, F

L 
33024 

R
P

T
 

49695 
07/31/2013 

T
alutis 

M
arilyn B

eth 
03/30/1 957 

M
anatee T

echnical 
141 

N
orth S

treet 
E

nglew
ood 

F
L 

34223 

Institute 
. 

R
P

T
 

49696 
07/31/2013 

V
ega R

eyes, 
01/07/1977 

F
lorida E

ducation Institute 
198 N

W
 46T

h A
ve #37 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33126 

M
arbelys 

.. 
. 

. 

,.. 
R

P
T

 
49697 

07/31/2013 
. R

ollins, C
ornicole 

08/25/1979 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
4234 3R

d A
ve S

outh 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 

R
ochelle 

Inc. 
.. 

33711 

R
P

T
 

49698 
07/31/2013 

R
oebuck 

D
anielle 

02/07/1979 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f 

11164 W
yndham

 H
ollow

 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32246 

M
arie 

F
lorida-C

ollege O
f 

Lane 
. 

P
harm

acy 
.. 

R
P

T
 

49699 
07/31/2013 

. R
estrepo O

ssa, 
12/30/1953 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh P

ark C
ir 

. O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

A
lvaro 

R
P

T
 

49700 
07/31/2013 

Lopez, Julie Y
vette 

05/19/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1110 N

e C
hildress A

 
34266 

R
P

T
 

49701 
07/31/2013 

M
artinez 

O
lga 

M
 

04/1 7/1 984 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 6516 S
aline S

treet 
T

am
pa 

F
L 

33634 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
13 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision ot 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered P

harm
acy T

echnician 
O

rder. 
Liccnsc D

atc 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

P
age 26 ol'47 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

07/31/2013 
B

urt, 
N

athaniel 
05/29/1984 

3986 B
oulevard C

enter 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32207 

D
rive S

uite #1 

07/31/2013 
R

ios 
M

ichael 
01/11/1988 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
1767 1767 P

ickw
ick P

1 
O

range P
ark 

F
L 

32003 

07/31/2013 
M

arquez Jennifer 
11/07/1985 

O
ther 

M
edical Institute O

f P
alm

 
4255 N

orth U
niversity 

S
unrise 

F
L 

33351 

C
ynthia 

B
each 

:R
oadA

pt.1O
1 

07/31/2013 
P

eace, B
randon 

11/25/1991 
19T

h 425 E
ast 19T

h 
P

anam
a C

ity, F
L 

32405 

Jason 
S

treet A
pt 101 

R
P

T
 

49706 
07/31/2013 

Jackson, Leroy Jr 
10/16/1977 

O
ther 

K
eiser C

areer C
ollege 

301 49T
h A

ve 
S

t. P
etersburg 

F
L 

R
P

T
 

49707 
07/31/2013 

A
rm

stead, D
em

etrius 
07/04/1982 

O
ther 

T
allahassee C

om
m

unity 
4768 W

oodville H
w

y A
pt 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32305 

- 
S

hayaer 
C

ollege 
1718 

R
P

T
 

49708 
07/31/2013 

B
laszka 

Jaim
i 

01/11/1980 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
41 

F
rancis Lane 

P
alm

 C
oast 

F
L 

32137 

R
P

T
 

49709 
07/31/2013 

A
llen, R

obert W
illiam

 
01/24/1959 

6540 N
e 21 S

t T
errace 

F
ort Lauderdale, 

F
L 

33308 

R
P

T
 

49710 
07/31/2013 

G
ornez 

S
ergio 

02/21/1991 
306 Lincoln R

d 
S

outh B
each 

F
L 

33139 

R
P

T
 

49711 
08/01/2013 

R
osario, Lindsay 

01/25/1 991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
6429 R

eef C
ircle 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33625 

M
arie 

R
P

T
 

49712 
08/01/2013 

S
zalanski, R

achael 
11/21/1991 

W
al-M

art 
3550 S

outh B
abcock 

M
elbourne, F

L 
32901 

Lynn 
S

treet 

R
P

T
 

49713 
08/01/2013 

T
hom

pson, lesha 
11/09/1991 

O
ther 

S
anford-B

row
n Institute 

9501 W
illiam

s R
d 

S
effner, F

L 
33584 

N
icole 

T
am

pa 

R
P

T
 

49714 
08/01/2013 

S
heely, K

iw
anza 

07/13/1988 
O

ther 
F

ortis Institute 
60T

h 2915 N
w

 60T
h A

ve 
S

unrise, F
L 

33313 

D
enise 

A
pt. 506 

R
P

T
 

49715 
08/01/2013 

R
eichard 

S
usan 

08/02/1966 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
75 S

w
 75T

h S
treet 

A
pt 

G
ainesville 

F
L 

32607 

M
arion 

. 
C

ollge O
f P

harm
acy 

E
6 

R
P

T
 

49716 
08/01/2013 

R
eyes 

A
m

aury 
Ii 

01/25/1 980 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity T

am
pa 

8033 8033 P
eterson R

d 
O

dessa 
F

L 
33556 

R
P

T
 

49717 
08/01/2013 

S
herem

et, M
ark Leo 

. 11/25/1990 
O

ther 
H

ealth M
anagem

ent 
3600 C

adbury 
V

enice, 
F

L 34293 

A
ssociates 

R
P

T
 

49718 
08/01/2013 

G
alvez M

uente, 
01/22/1977 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

1320 N
w

 120T
h S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33167 

JessicaM
 

- 
- 

. 

R
P

T
 

49719 
08/01/2013 

P
atel, P

ooja 
12/13/1985 

W
algreens 

4747 S
w

 C
ollege R

oad 
O

cala, F
L 

34474 

C
handrakant 

- 
- 

R
P

T
 

49720 
08/02/2013 

S
pradley 

C
arla 

08/22/1 990 
F

londa G
ulf C

oast U
niv 

347 S
w

 B
lvd 

Lake C
ity 

F
L 

32025 

- 
Janretta 

.. 
- 

R
P

T
 

49721 
08/02/2013 

S
alazar 

D
aniel E

lijah 
06/17/1991 

W
al 

M
art 

725 N
 

T
yndall P

w
ky 

C
allaw

ay 
F

L 
32404 

R
P

T
 

49722 
08/02/2013 

W
oodyard W

ilson 
01/02/1 990 

A
nthem

 C
ollege 

2613 G
eorgia A

ve 
S

anford 
F

L 
32773 

Julie A
nn 

R
P

T
 

49723 
08/02/2013 

M
artinez, D

eyanira 
02/1 2/1 986 

W
algreens 

4532 19T
h S

treet C
ir W

 
B

radenton, F
L 

34207 

Y
esrnell D

eya 
A

pt B
 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_hc.p_dxl5l 5:0911212013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 

R
P

T
 

49702 

R
P

T
 

49703 

R
P

T
 

49704 

R
P

T
 

49705 
C

vs C
arernark 



D
ivision of 

M
edical O

uc!ity 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

a\ A
 

R
eport for 

: 
Pharm

acy i'echnician 
Soit O

iJcr. O
dginal 

D
atc 

I
V
 

7
/
1
/
2
0
1
3
-
8
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
3
 

Page 2
7
 o
1
4
7
 

P
r
o
c
e
s
s
e
d
:
 

9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49724 
08/02/2013 

U
m

anzor 
A

lexis 
961 

F
lorida E

ducation Institute 
5344 N

w
 30T

h C
t 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33142 

O
neyda 

R
P

T
 

49725 
08/0212013 

A
ndrew

s 
E

bony 
08/20/1 990 

O
ther 

S
anford B

row
n Institute 

609 S
 

C
oronet S

t 
P

lant C
ity 

F
L 33567 

a 

R
P

T
 

49726 
08/02/2013 

R
ojas 

Jorge A
 

08/21/1 954 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
2420 N

w
 

36T
h T

errace 
G

ainesville 
F

L 
32605 

R
P

T
 

49727 
08/02/2013 

A
rm

enteros 
E

lena 
11/07/1965 

W
algreens 

4768 S
w

 2N
dT

er 
C

oral G
ables 

F
L 

331 34 

R
P

T
 

49728 
08/02/2013 

F
ischer 

T
am

ara 
12/20/1 990 

2899 F
orest 

Ln 
D

allas 
T

X
 

75234 

R
enae 

R
P

T
 

49729 
08/02/2013 

B
yron 

S
cherrell 

10/20/1987 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1719 S
inging P

alm
 D

r 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32712 

R
P

T
 

49730 
08/02/2013 

C
annonier 

C
harles 

06/07/1 986 
W

algreens 
8337 S

outh P
ark C

ircle 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32819 

F
ernandoJr 

R
P

T
 

49731 
08/05/2013 

T
orres, R

odolfo 
11/30/1977 

W
algreens 

4053 C
rockers Lake B

lvd. 
S

arasota, F
L 

34238 

A
drian 

A
pt.2418 

:. 

R
P

T
 

49732 
08/05/2013 

W
ashington, B

etty 
06/07/1954 

W
algreens 

8325 S
outh 

P
ark C

ircle 
O

rlando, F
L 

32819 

Jean 
S

uite 200 

R
P

T
 

49733 
08/06/2013 

P
rice 

D
errick 

05/08/1990 
16130 Jog R

oad 
D

elray B
each, F

L 
33484 

C
hristopher 

. 
.. 

. 

R
P

T
 

. 
49734 

08/06/2013 
P

etersen, Lakia 
04/21/1987 

6938 
N

w
 B
a
r
o
d
a
 S

t 
P

ort S
aint Lucie, F

L 

C
ierria 

. 
. 

. 
34983 

R
P

T
 

49735 
08/06/2013 

M
ercer 

S
ean P

eter 
10/24/1 989 

1001 
S

 
F

ederal H
ighw

ay 
B

oca R
aton 

F
L 

33432 

R
P

T
 

49736 
08/06/2013 

K
issoon 

D
evika S

 
07/1 5/1 974 

9600 P
ark S

outh C
t 

O
rlando 

F
L 

32837 

R
P

T
 

49737 
08/06/2013 

P
resler 

S
am

antha 
12/14/1 986 

4297 O
ldfield C

rossing 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32223 

K
errie 

R
P

T
 

49738 
08/06/2013 

K
night, S

handell 
5
0
0
 

N
. O

rlando A
ve 

W
inter P

ark, F
L 

32789 

N
ureka 

. 

. 

R
P

T
 

49739 
08/06/2013 

Lusby, A
m

anda Illene 
10/05/1984 

12001 
D

r M
ik S

t 
N

 A
pt 

S
aint P

etersburg, 
F

L 

3005 
33716 

R
P

T
 

49740 
08/06/2013 

P
rotin 

A
shley B

lase 
02/09/1 988 

563 
N

 
F

ranklin T
pk 

R
am

sey 
N

J 
07446 

R
P

T
 

49741 
. 

08/06/2013 
. W

hitn,arsh, A
nne 

09/07/1 991 
W

algreens 
1891 N

eptune D
rive 

E
nglew

ood, 
F

L 
34223 

M
arie 

R
P

T
 

49742 
08/06/2013 

W
ilson 

E
leanor A

nn 
11/27/1967 

C
vsC

arem
ark 

46 W
atson R

oad 
S

t 
A

ugusine F
L 

32086 

R
P

T
 

49743 
08/06/2013 

F
iler 

A
riel C

iarra 
09/03/1992 

3350W
 H

illsborough A
ve 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
3
3
6
1
4
 

#
1
3
3
5
 

R
P

T
 

49744 
08/06/2013 

F
orrest, B

rittney 
01/10/1995 

. 
. 

2839 C
ounty R

d 210 W
est 

Jacksonville, F
L
 

32259 

N
icole 

R
P

T
 

49745 
08/06/2013 

P
antoja, P

riscilla 
11/24/1981 

17200 C
o
m
m
e
r
c
e
 P

ark 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33647 

B
lvd 

F
lorida D

e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 

3
 
1
1
:
2
1
:
4
1
 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical O

ucU
ty A

ssurance 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 
R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
Sort C

rdcr. 
D

ate 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
—

 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49746 
08/06/2013 

H
eyw

ard, S
tephanie 

09/09/1 981 
1400 T

railblazer D
rive 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32310 

D
eniece 

R
P

T
 

49747 
08/06/2013 

P
ourbaix, Jacquelyn 

04/16/1981 
255 C

itrus T
ow

er B
lvd 

C
lerm

ont, F
L 

34711 

N
kole 

#0015 

R
P

T
 

49748 
( 

08/06/2013 
R

eyes, K
arem

 
12/30/1989 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
15231 S

w
 80 S

t. #305 
M

iam
i, F

L 33193 

C
enters 

R
P

T
 

P
elayoLisandra 

01/23/1989 
8931 

S
w

 4T
h T

errace 
M

rnm
i 

F
L 33174 

—
 

R
P

T
 

49750 
08/06/2013 

C
urry 

P
rince Ii 

09/04/1989 
2840 D

avid W
alker D

r 
E

ustis 
F

L 
32726 

R
P

T
 

49751 
08/06/2013 

Lopez 
K

eyling E
 

02/08/1 992 
14012 S

 W
 8T

h S
t 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33184 

R
P

T
 

49752 
08/06/2013 

A
lgarin 

M
argie 

11/21/1963 
500 E

agles Landing D
rive 

Lakeland 
F

L 33810 

R
P

T
 

49753 
08/06/2013 

T
hurnion B

ryan 
02/01/1987 

W
algreens 

2240 7T
h A

ve 
N

 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 

H
inds, C

laire M
ichelle 

. 
. 

33713 

R
P

T
 

49754 
08/06/2013 

C
angiam

ila 
John 

08/06/1 952 
1940 S

w
 63 A

ve 
G

ainesville 
F

L 
32608 

R
P

T
 

49755 
08/06/2013 

C
onzelm

ann, B
rooke 

05/1 2/1 988 
O

ther 
C

ypress P
harm

acy Inc. 
9371 C

ypress Lake D
rive 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33919 

A
nnel 

S
uite 

1 

R
P

T
 

49756 
08/06/2013 

T
hom

pson, Y
vonne 

03/30/1 964 
O

range C
ounty P

ublic 
2726 C

astle O
ak A

ve 
O

rlando, F
L 

32808 

G
lendora 

S
chools 

R
P

T
 

49757 
08/06/2013 

D
avis C

hristina M
 

09/02/1 983 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 
26638 G

lenw
ood D

r 
W

esley C
hapel 

F
L 

33544 

R
P

T
 

49758 
08/06/2013 

E
llis 

Jessica A
nnette 

04/04/1986 
O

ther 
P

tcb 
686 G

lades R
oad 

B
oca R

aton 
F

L 
33431 

R
P

T
 

. 
49759 

08/06/2013 
R

icardo, 
R

yan 
09/04/1976 

O
ther 

E
verest lnstftute 

2205 S
e 24 F

l 
H

om
estead, F

L 
33035 

E
dw

ard 
.. 

R
P

T
 

49760 
. 

08/06/2013 
V

ilorio, R
ojelio 

02/24/1989 
W

algreens 
10110 Lyons R

d 
B

oynton B
each, F

L 
33473 

N
em

ecio 

R
P

T
 

49761 
08/06/2013 

C
am

eron 
A

rva P
edra 

09/30/1984 
O

ther 
S

andford B
row

n Institute 
10401 D

eerw
ood P

ark 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32256 

B
lvd #1 

R
P

T
 

49762 
08/06/2013 

H
arvey 

Leah M
ichelle 

09/20/1994 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
37410 G

rays A
irport R

d 
Lady Lake 

F
L 

32159 

R
P

T
 

49763 
08/06/2013 

T
hom

as, R
ebecca 

07/31/1994 
- 

. 
H

enryW
. B

rew
ster 

13287 A
rbor P

ointe C
ircle 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33617 

V
ictoria 

T
echnical C

enter 
A

pt 202 

R
P

T
 

49764 
08/06/2013 

A
m

ey 
R

achel 
E

 
11/18/1985 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 15539 60T

h S
treet 

C
learw

ater 
F

L 
33760 

R
P

T
 

49765 
08/06/2013 

C
obb 

A
sya A

S
haye 

01/17/1994 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

866 D
unn A

ve 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32218 

Jacksonville 

R
P

T
 

49766 
08/06/2013 

D
unbar 

K
ayla M

arie 
03/11/1990 

316 
N

 T
urkey P

ine Loop 
Lecanto 

F
L 34461 

R
P

T
 

49767 
08/06/2013 

W
illiam

s 
T

oni 
03/01/1976 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

859791 S
t T

errace N
 

S
em

inole 
F

L 33777 

R
P

T
 

49768 
08/06/2013 

B
raunstein 

S
haron C

 
06/30/1974 

7068 B
urgess D

r 
Lake W

orth 
F

L 
33467 

R
P

T
 

49769 
08/06/2013 

R
odriguez Jayne 

10/1 0/1 988 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
8209 C

ollier P
lace 

T
em

ple T
errace 

F
L 

M
arie 

33637 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
3 11:21:41 

O
N

O
 



(D
ivision of 

M
edical 

A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
k A

 
A

 
N

ew
 L

iccuse R
eport for 2208 

'feclinkian 
Sun 

O
rder: 

D
ate 

I V
 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
—

 
P

aoe29of47 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49770 
08/06/2013 

H
ollow

ay, A
nthony 

11/09/1991 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

5302 R
uth M

orris R
d 

W
im

aum
a, F

L 
33598 

M
arquel 

B
randon C

am
pus 

R
P

T
 

49771 
08/06/2013 

P
etite C

harles, 
09/11/1981 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
11484 Johnson C

reek 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32218 

M
oriique 

C
ircle 

. 

R
P

T
 

49772 
08/06/2013 

T
hom

as 
P

atricia 
10/20/1 987 

V
irginia C

ollege 
3500 U

niversity B
lvd N

orth 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32277 
D

enise 
Jacksonville 

#2801 
R

P
T

 
49773 

08/06/2013 
T

rujillo 
Leshann 

11/26/1987 
T

arget C
orporation 

1200 S
 F

ederal H
ighw

ay 
D

eerfield B
each 

F
L 

;C
hiloi 

=
 

R
P

T
 

49774 
08/06/2013 

E
ddy 

S
arnantha Lyn 

08/07/1992 
319 

S
 

W
oodland B

lvd 
D

eland 
F

L 
32720 

R
P

T
 

49775 
08/06/2013 

G
odw

in 
T

hom
as 

04/09/1 992 
S

hands A
t U

niversity 
6406 N

w
 37T

h D
rive 

G
ainesville 

F
L 

32653 
M

itchell 
O

f F
lorida 

R
P

T
 

49776 
08/06/2013 

B
row

n 
C

arolyn 
01/06/1956 

W
algreens 

l2l5D
unnA

ve#2 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32218 

R
P

T
 

49777 
08/06/2013 

C
ody 

S
tacy C

am
ille 

08/18/1985 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 
1749 W

ade R
d 

T
allahassee 

F
L 

32301 

R
P

T
 

49778 
08/06/2013 

C
louse 

Lynn R
enee 

01/16/1985 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 150 B
onita D

r 
P

alatka 
F

L 
32177 

R
P

T
 

49779 
08/06/2013 

G
reen 

G
ina S

onge 
09/06/1979 

O
ther 

P
ass A

ssured 
7404W

 
N

ine M
ile R

d 
P

ensacola 
F

L 
32526 

R
P

T
 

49780 
08/06/2013 

H
aw

kins, M
atthew

 
04/20/1983 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2001 
W

est 86T
h S

treet 
Indianapolis, IN

 
46260 

K
yle 

C
linical P

harm
acy 

R
P

T
 

49781 
08/06/2013 

C
respo, N

ayla 
09/0811988 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
4412 W

est B
urke S

t. 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33614 

C
enters 

R
P

T
 

49782 
08/06/2013 

H
ead 

D
eann Lenae 

11/18/1991 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

2825 N
w

 29T
h D

r 
B

oca R
aton 

F
L 

33434 

R
P

T
 

49783 
08/06/2013 

C
iliberti, C

arm
en 

08/04/1 992 
3972 T

ow
n C

enter B
lvd 

. 
O

rlando, F
L 

32837 
T

hom
as 

. 
. 

R
P

T
 

49784 
08/07/2013 

W
einreich 

E
rin 

06/24/1 993 
F

lorida H
ealth C

are P
lans 

799 S
terling C

hase D
r 

P
ort O

range 
F

L 
32128 

R
P

T
 

49785 
08/07/2013 

W
illiam

s, Lucas R
yan 

09/09/1991 
H

enry W
 B

rew
ster 

13000 B
ruce B

. D
ow

ns 
T

am
pa, F

L 
3361 2 

T
echnicaC

enter 
. 

R
P

T
 

49786 
08/07/2013 

D
eitz 

N
ickolas 

12/29/1993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
99434 O

verseas H
w

y 
K

ey Largo 
F

L 
33037 

R
P

T
 

49787 
08/07/2013 

B
eatyA

nianda Jane 
07/1 0/1 986 

1015 C
am

elia S
t 

A
tlantic B

each 
F

L 
32233 

R
P

T
 

49788 
08/07/2013 

C
urry 

K
elly R

ae 
12/26/1967 

125 R
obinhood D

r 
D

eland 
F

L 
32724 

R
P

T
 

49789 
. 

08/07/2013 
V

on H
oven, T

am
i 

10/13/1971 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
. 

34502 S
tate R

oad 54 
Z

ephyrhills, F
L 

33541 
M

arie 
R

P
T

 
49790 

08/07/2013 
A

lexander M
elissa 

07/10/1 970 
2180W

 
9 M

ile R
d 

P
ensacola 

F
L 

32534 
Louise 

R
P

T
 

49791 
08/07/2013 

F
eola 

B
rittany M

arie 
02/22/1 992 

36301 E
astlake R

d 
P

alm
 H

arbor 
F

L 
34685 

R
P

T
 

49792 
08/07/2013 

A
rnetunke, T

erry 
01/18/1990 

9930 50T
h S

t C
ir E

 
P

arrish, F
L 

34219 
Lloyd 

R
P

T
 

49793 
08/08/2013 

Jacob 
Leona 

04/21/1 993 
13800 P

ines B
lvd 

P
em

broke P
ines 

F
L 

33027 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rptjic.p_dxI5l 5:09/1212013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
M

sIon of 
M

edical Q
uc!ity 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

A
 

A
 

N
ew

 L
keiise R

eport for 2208 
R

egistered i'{iarm
acy T

echnician 
O

rder. O
riginal 

D
ate 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
—

 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49794 
08/08/2013 

P
atel. S

hreshthaben 
01/28/1 990 

9858 U
s H

w
y 301 

S
. 

R
iverview

, FL
 

33578 
P

ulin 

R
P

T
 

49795 
08/08/2013 

G
utierrez, D

antes 
10/07/1 988 

6050 
S

. D
ixie H

w
y 

S
outh M

iam
i, F

L 
33143 

A
lan 

R
P

T
 

49796 
08/08/2013 

G
am

ble 
M

ichelle 
08/10/1981 

9110 G
reenbriar Lane 

P
ort 

R
uchey 

F
L 

34668 

R
P

T
 

49797 
08/08/2013 

R
oyo 

C
laudio R

uben 
09/21/1966 

W
algreens 

11690 S
w

 72N
d S

treet 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33173 

R
P

T
 

49798 
08/08/2013 

B
ready 

Jean 
10/20/1 966 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
6014 U

s H
ighw

ay 19 
N

ew
 P

ort R
ichey 

F
L 

N
orth S

uite 250 
34652 

R
P

T
 

49799 
08/08/2013 

W
illiam

s A
lisha Latori 

09/05/1985 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
431 

S
t Jam

es A
ve 

G
oose C

reek S
C

 
29445 

R
P

T
 

49800 
08/08/2013 

T
aylor 

Jordan T
yler 

07/02/1 994 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1880 W

oodland C
ircle A

pt 
V

ero B
each 

F
L 

32967 
203 

R
P

T
 

49801 
08/08/2013 

C
astillo 

S
haryk 

02/06/1 985 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
12929 S

w
 59 T

err 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33183 

R
P

T
 

49802 
08/08/2013 

S
gro 

B
rooke N

icole 
06/1 9/1 991 

W
elldyne R

x 
500 E

agles Landing D
rive 

Lakeland 
F

L 
33810 

R
P

T
 

49803 
08/08/2013 

M
artinez, A

lyssa 
07/03/1 985 

W
algreens 

6370 B
ayshore R

d 
N

orth F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33917 

R
P

T
 

49804 
08/08/2013 

A
yala-R

ainos 
Luis 

06/05/1994 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

13824 O
sprey Links R

d 
O

rlando, F
L 

32837 
R

icardo 
A

pt. 195 

R
P

T
 

49805 
08/08/2013 

P
once, M

aria 
08/02/1987 

O
ther 

B
rew

ster T
echnical C

enter 
703 R

iver B
ay D

rive 
T

am
pa. F

L 
33619 

D
elosangeles 

R
P

T
 

49806 
08/08/2013 

B
ryan, M

eghan 
11/15/1990 

W
al-M

art 
6910 W

 W
aters A

ve A
pt 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33634 
E

lizabeth 
1502 

R
P

T
 

49807 
08/08/2013 

O
lds, B

renda Jean 
08/11/1 964 

274 M
ain R

oad 
Lake M

ary, F
L 

32746 

R
P

T
 

49808 
08/08/2013 

B
ush,T

heodore 
11/04/1992 

O
ther 

M
ci Institute O

f 
2329 C

enter S
tone Lane 

R
iviera B

each, F
L 

33404 
A

lexander 
T

echnology 
R

P
T

 
49809 

08/08/2013 
C

om
bs, B

randi Lynn 
11/22/1978 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 223 N

e 15T
h A

ve 
P

om
pano B

each, 
F

L 
33060 

R
P

T
 

49810 
08/08/2013 

Lem
es, Jessica 

09/16/1 994 
2701 

S
. W

oodland B
lvd 

D
eland, F

L 
32720 

N
icole 

R
P

T
 

49811 
08/08/2013 

M
ederos-A

lvarez, 
03/06/1980 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
150 S

e 6T
h A

ve A
pt 38 

H
om

estead, F
L 

33030 
A

liuska 
C

enters 

R
P

T
 

49812 
08/08/2013 

V
etaw

 
M

ayshyra 
05/23/1993 

O
ther 

P
inellas C

ounty Joe C
orps 500 22N

d S
treet S

outh 
S

t P
etersburg 

F
L 

33712 

R
P

T
 

49813 
08/08/2013 

E
zeanya, O

biora 
C

 
07/24/1989 

1819W
 T

ennessee S
t 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32304 

R
P

T
 

49814 
08/08/2013 

C
adavid 

A
ngela 

04/22/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2300 N

 F
lam

ingo R
oad 

P
em

broke P
ines 

F
L 

33028 

R
P

T
 

49815 
08/08/2013 

K
essel, Llelenys 

09/12/1971 
O

ther 
O

 
1 

G
len R

oyal P
w

ky A
pt 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33125 
1004 

R
P

T
 

49816 
08/08/2013 

W
illiam

s 
K

erry A
nn 

06/11/1986 
W

al M
art 

19501 
N

w
 27 A

ve 
M

iam
i G

ardens 
F

L 
33056 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

M
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 
: R

cgisteicd Pharm
acy 

D
atc 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
—

 
P

age 
31 of47 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49817 
08/08/2013 

M
edina, S

am
antha 

09/29/1991 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 
1707 W

est F
erris 

T
am

pa, 
F

L 33603 
Iris F

aith 
R

P
T

 
49818 

08/08/2013 
F

errer 
Jennifer 

10/24/1981 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
9722 S

w
 166T

h C
t 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33196 

R
P

T
 

49819 
08/08/2013 

N
anney 

Laurel Lea 
09/11/1970 

utrier 
S

teps 
9330 S

w
 183 T

errace 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33157 

R
P

T
 

49820 
08/08/2013 

Q
uijano Johan 

10/30/1991 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

11601 
N

w
 29T

h #4E
 

C
oral S

pring 
F

L 
33065 

R
P

T
 

49821 
08/08/2013 

G
rossm

an 
K

yle 
12/27/1 990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

405 N
 O

cean B
lvd 

P
om

pano B
each 

F
L 

R
obert 

33062 

R
P

T
 

49822 
08/08/2013 

P
arrish 

B
renda 

09/14/1951 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1733 S
 

C
lyde M

orris B
lve 

D
aytona B

each 
F

L 
M

ason 
A

pt 103 
32119 

R
P

T
 

49823 
08/08/2013 

Jones, K
aitlyn 

10/02/1989 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3841 

S
e 7T

h A
ve 

C
ape C

oral, F
L 

33904 
'M

ichelle 
R

P
T

 
49824 

08/08/2013 
M

ichel, Lashonda 
'01/25/1989 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
3531 N

iw
3R

d S
t 

Lauderhill, F
L 

33311 
T

renice 
R

P
T

 
49825 

08/08/2013 
P

acheco 
M

aydelin 
02/16/1 971 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
13315 S

w
 253 T

err 
H

om
estead 

F
L 

33032 
C

enters 

R
P

T
 

49826 
08/08/2013 

C
alved, Joharia 

03/14/1979 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f 

6700 C
onroy-W

inderm
ere 

O
rlando, F

L 
32835 

M
arquez 

F
lorida-C

ollege O
f 

R
d S

te 140 
P

harm
acy 

R
P

T
 

49827 
08/08/2013 

Lem
ons, B

arbara 
12/02/1975 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
3915 D

arlene R
d. 

M
iddleburg. F

L 
32068 

Lynn 
R

P
T

 
49828 

08/08/2013 
C

oble 
N

icole M
aria 

02/23/1986 
3792 S

 
S

uncoast B
lvd 

H
om

osassa 
F

L 
34448 

R
P

T
 

49829 
08/08/2013 

Justice 
K

rista Lee 
10/1 9/1 985 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
2930 D

rew
 S

t A
pt 1410 

C
learw

ater 
F

L 
33759 

R
P

T
 

49830 
08/08/2013 

C
alderon, C

hristina 
'02/08/1993 

6545 S
 E

 K
anner H

w
y 

S
tuart, F

L 
34997 

R
P

T
 

' 
49831 

'08/08/2013 
Jacob, S

ajit 
' 

09/20/1974 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida - 
15212 O

ctavia Lane 
O

dessa, F
L 

33556 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

R
P

T
 

49832 
. 

08/08/2013 
H

osinski, Jam
es 

10/10/1989 
6545 S

 K
anner H

w
y 

S
tuart, F

L 
34997 

B
ryan 

R
P

T
 

49833 
08/08/2013 

K
oko, Laura A

fi 
04/15/1974 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
4719 C

hastain D
rive 

M
elbourne, 

F
L 

32940 

R
P

T
 

49834 
08/08/2013 

P
arkhurst, K

ristina 
05/15/1993 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
26362636 P

ost R
d. 

M
elbourne, F

L 
32935 

N
icole 

R
P

T
 

49835 
08/08/2013 

P
aelrnariano, Jennifer 

11/10/1980 
C

vs C
arem

ark;C
vs 

4501 4501 M
adison S

treet 
P

alatka, F
L 

32177 
C

arem
ark 

R
P

T
 

49836 
08/08/2013 

G
ainer, C

arla 
09/21/1970 

4870 S
outh A

popka 
O

rlando, F
L 32819 

D
ennette 

' 
V

inelandR
d 

R
P

T
 

49837 
08/08/2013 

S
antiago, B

eatriz 
05/18/1976 

C
oncorde 

C
areer Institute 

1725 W
ashington S

t 
H

ollyw
ood, F

L 
33020 

vette 
R

P
T

 
49838 

08/08/2013 
V

incenzi, K
ristin E

rin 
08/31/1985 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

615 E
 3R

d A
venue 

N
ew

 S
m

yrna B
each, F

L 
32169 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxI5l 5:09/1212013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

M
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 
R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
Sort C

ider: 
D

ate 

I 
L

 
—

 
7/1/2013-8/31/2013 

i2 of47 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49839 
08/08/2013 

H
ill, K

ylene F
rances 

09/07/1992 
11000 N

. M
ilitary T

rail 
P

alm
 B

each G
ardens, 

F
L 

33410 

R
P

T
 

49840 
08/08/2013 

G
reen, M

arlan 
03/21/1 980 

7148 C
olony C

lub D
rive 

Lake W
orth, 

F
L 

33463 
A

nthony 

R
P

T
 

49841 
08/08/2013 

B
onin, K

arine 
03/1 3/1 992 

850W
 S

am
ple R

oad 
P

om
pano B

each, 
F

L 

G
abrielle 

33064 

R
P

T
 

49842 
08/09/2013 

S
m

ith 
S

hari R
adonna 

03/21/1960 
1098 C

laude W
hite R

d 
S

anford 
N

C
 

27332 

R
P

T
 

49843 
08/09/2013 

Jackson, C
hristopher 

07/21/1987 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1127 S

outh S
r19 

P
alatka, F

L 
32177 

Leigh 

R
P

T
 

49844 
08/09/2013 

O
bas-K

anes, R
ose 

08/28/1 976 
W

algreens 
7753 B

iltm
ore B

lvd 
M

iram
ar, F

L 
33023 

C
arine 

R
P

T
 

49845 
08/09/2013 

S
m

ith 
C

ory W
illiam

 
01/20/1 988 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
342 C

oral D
r 

M
elbourne 

F
L 

32935 

R
P

T
 

49846 
08/09/2013 

M
cqueen, Lolita 

11/25/1974 
O

ther 
S

outheastern C
ollege 

4811 S
w

4lS
t S

treetA
pt 

P
em

broke P
ark, 

F
L 

106 
33023 

R
P

T
 

49847 
08/09/2013 

M
olter, D

iana M
ildred 

03/20/1977 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1806 R

idgew
ood A

ve 
E

dgew
ater. F

L 
32132 

R
P

T
 

49848 
08/09/2013 

Lee 
D

ennis 
P

 
03/14/1970 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
T

am
pa 

6423 M
oss W

ay 
T

am
pa 

F
L 

33625 

R
P

T
 

49849 
08/09/2013 

Jim
enez, D

aim
arelys 

10/19/1973 
O

ther 
P

rofessional T
raining 

15461 S
w

 156T
h A

ve 
M

iam
i. 

F
L 

33187 

C
enters 

R
P

T
 

49850 
08/09/2013 

Q
uigley, R

enee 
02/14/1983 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
4163 O

xford A
ve. 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32210 

P
atricia 

R
P

T
 

49851 
08/09/2013 

Jennings, A
yentl 

05/21/1987 
W

algreens 
2550 2550 N

. H
iaw

assee 
O

rlando, F
L 

32818 
T

onye 
R

d 

R
P

T
 

49852 
08/09/2013 

T
aylor 

S
hanika R

 
12/23/1994 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
306 C

ornw
allis C

ourt 
K

issim
m

ee 
F

L 
34758 

R
P

T
 

49853 
08/09/2013 

P
orubcan, Laurie A

nn 
06/19/1963 

W
algreens 

12130 U
s H

w
y 41 S

outh 
G

ibsonton, F
L 

33534 
Lot 

161 

R
P

T
 

49854 
08/09/2013 

P
erez V

aldespino, 
12/31/1987 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

13810 S
w

 276 S
t 

H
om

estead, F
L 

33032 
Liliet 

R
P

T
 

49855 
08/09/2013 

K
rollnian, A

udrey 
09/17/1994 

O
ther 

P
inellas C

ounty Job C
orps 500 22N

d S
treet S

outh 
S

t P
etersburg, F

L 
33707 

Jean 

R
P

T
 

49856 
08/09/2013 

Jim
enez-C

ollazo, 
07/06/1970 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

- 
14102 C

olonial S
pring 

O
rlando, F

L 
32826 

M
aria Luisa 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
W

ay 

R
P

T
 

49857 
08)09/2013 

M
aggin, M

itchell 
11/01/1983 

W
algreens 

8156 M
ystic H

arbor C
ircle 

B
oynton B

each, F
L 

33436 

Justin 

R
P

T
 

49858 
08/09/2013 

C
hapm

an, Jutathip 
03/20/1982 

825 B
eat P

kw
y N

w
 

F
ort W

alton B
each, F

L 

M
alaena 

R
P

T
 

49859 
08/09/2013 

P
atterson, C

ynthia 
07/04/1 990 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

726 N
w

 3R
d S

t 
F

lorida C
ity, F

L 
33034 

A
ndrea 

R
P

T
 

49860 
08/09/2013 

Loscielle 
Jim

 
01/08/1 991 

W
algreens 

13950 Jog R
d 

D
elray B

each 
F

L 
33446 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
3 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality 

Ivt 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 

R
egistered 

T
echniciam

 
7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

C
ider: 

L
icense 

Page 
3
3
 o
f
4
7
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

R
P

T
 

R
 P

T
 

R
P

T
 

06/06/1993 

05/07/1991 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic p_dxIS

l 5:09/12/2013 11:21:41 
O

N
D

 

R
P

T
 

49865 
08/09/2013 

W
ard, N

anette M
arie 

R
P

T
 

49866 
08/09/2013 

S
him

u, S
haw

on 
S

him
u 

R
P

T
 

49867 
08/09/2013 

Z
ubay, M

ichael 
Joseph 

R
P

T
 

49868 
08/09/2013 

P
urvis, D

yanna 
R

yann 

R
P

T
 

49869 
08/09/2013 

S
oliz, M

arie M
ills 

49861 
08/09/2013 

P
orter, R

yan D
aniel 

08/11/1993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
5331 M

aravoss S
t. 

C
ocoa, F

L 
32927 

49862 
08/09/2013 

S
ands, P

riscilla K
ay 

06/25/1994 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
2015 D

eborah 
D

r. 
S

pring H
ill, F

L 
34609 

Inc. 

49863 
08/09/2013 

M
atta 

A
ngelica M

arie 
12/30/1986 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

P
ort C

harlotte 
F

L 
33954 

49864 
08/09/2013 

C
onklin 

C
hristine 

10/02/1980 
O

ther 
P

harm
acy T

echnician 
Land 0 Lakes 

F
L 

34639 

06/18/1980 
O

ther 
B

rew
ster T

echnical 
7418 B

rooklyn R
d 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33625 

05/01/1992 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
170 170 B

rooks R
oad 

N
orth F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33917 

06/05/1978 
W

algreeris 
11811 143R

d S
t U

nit B
 

Largo, F
L 

33774 
Ii 

21044 D
elake A

ve. 

3430 G
olden E

agle D
r 

R
P

T
 

R
 P

T
 

R
P

T
 

R
P

T
 

R
 P

T
 

R
 P

T
 

R
P

T
 

R
P

T
 

R
 P

T
 

49870 
08/09/2013 

S
lim

, K
atie Isabel 

49871 
08/09/2013 

R
igdon, A

leshia 
M

isheel 

49872 
08/09/2013 

S
anchez, Jilene 

49873 
08/09/2013 

G
uevara, Jorge 

A
lberto 

49874 
08/09/2013 

R
am

os, M
ary 

49875 
08/09/2013 

S
tanaker, T

iffany 
A

nne 

49876 
08/12/2013 

Q
uinones. S

andra 

49877 
08/12/2013 

S
eguritan. K

im
berly 

B
elleza 

04/01/1983 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1208 W

. Jefferson S
treet 

Q
uincy, F

L 
32351 

06/13/1977 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f 

1050 E
astbrook B

lvd. 
W

inter P
ark, F

L 
32792 

F
lorida-C

ollege O
f 

1050 E
astbrook B

lvd 
P

harm
acy 

06/04/1981 
W

algreens 
13247 W

hitehaven Ln U
nit 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33966 
708 

02/21/1980 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
11156 Lim

erick 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32221 

Inc. 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

685 S
e 37T

h 
P

1 
H

om
estead, F

L 
33033 

O
ther 

C
oncorde C

areer Institute 
8325 B

ay P
ointe D

r A
pt 

T
am

pa, F
L 33615 

404N
 

08/02/1 980 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
1461 

N
e 169 S

treet 
A

pt. 
N

orth M
iam

i B
each, F

L 

128 
33162 

01/31/1980 
W

algreens 
1534 C

ape C
oral P

kw
y 

11/23/1982 
O

ther 
S

outh D
ade S

kill C
enter 

1330 S
w

 8T
h A

ve 
F

lorida C
ity. F

L 
33034 

01/08/1994 
H

endry R
egional 

417 W
 A

rcade A
ve. 

C
lew

iston, 
F

L 
33440 

M
edical C

enter 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 

33415 
49878 

08/12/2013 
W

alters, P
auline Isola 

04/22/1960 
O

ther 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 O
f
 P
a
l
m
 

5843 S
outh B

ond D
rive 

B
each;45T

h S
treet 

P
harm

acy 

R
P

T
 

4
9
8
7
9
 

0
8
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

R
y
b
a
c
z
u
k
,
 G
i
d
e
o
n
 

0
8
/
1
4
/
1
9
9
2
 

O
t
h
e
r
 

T
echnical E

ducation 
1028 L Lake B

erkley D
r. 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34746 

C
enter O

sceola 
R

P
T

 
49880 

08/12/2013 
S

iw
inski 

M
arilyn 

04/15/1981 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute H
eritage 

5712 F
ive A

cre R
oad 

P
lant C

ity 
F

L 
33565 

Institute 

R
P

T
 

49881 
08/12/2013 

R
osier, 

N
andi Jam

ila 
03/19/1993 

T
allahassee C

om
m

 
5652 B

raveheart W
ay 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32317 

C
ollege 



D
iv,siori of 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

,V
 

N
ew

 
R

eport for 2208 
Pharm

acy 
O

rdei. 
D

ate 

I 
1 

—
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Paoe 

of 47 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49882 
08/12/2013 

S
equeira, Jessica 

09/25/1 982 
E

verest Institute 
10312 S

w
 3 

S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33174 

D
iana 

R
P

T
 

49883 
08/12/2013 

W
olm

an, N
oah H

arris 
07/06/1995 

K
ings P

harm
acy 

2814 N
 U

niversity D
r 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33065 

R
P

T
 

49884 
08/12/2013 

S
urface, C

rista N
icole 

09/13/1984 
V

V
algreens 

4239 M
em

phis A
ve 

N
ew

 P
ort R

ichey, 
F

L 
34652 

R
P

T
 

49885 
08/12/2013 

H
assan 

E
m

il T
ahm

id 
08/10/1992 

B
ox 772046 

C
oral S

prings 
F

L 
33077 

R
P

T
 

49886 
08/12/2013 

P
ersaud 

Jessica 
08/28/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

11711 S
outhw

est 208 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33177 
M

athada; 
S

treet 

R
P

T
 

49887 
08/12/2013 

M
cnatt 

S
tephanie 

04/1 2/1 990 
16825 E

 C
olonial D

rive 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32820 

Lauren 

R
P

T
 

49888 
08/12/2013 

M
alanow

ski 
D

enise A
 

05/02/1979 
1251 

S
 T

oledo B
lade B

lvd 
N

orth P
ort 

F
L 

34288 

R
P

T
 

49889 
08/12/2013 

N
ieves 

M
yriam

 E
nid 

05/26/1 995 
5142 V

ista Lago D
rive 

O
rlando 

F
L 

32811 

R
P

T
 

49890 
08/12/2013 

Leonard 
K

erry A
nne 

03/24/1 993 
12620 B

each B
lvd #12 

Jacksonville 
F

L 
32246 

R
P

T
 

49891 
08/12/2013 

Iglesias 
Lisa D

aniela 
09/10/1994 

1590 
E

 B
uena V

ista D
rive 

O
rlando 

F
L 

32830 

R
P

T
 

49892 
08/12/2013 

M
artinez, P

ura 
08/28/1 971 

W
algreens 

4311 
S

w
 131 

Lane 
M

iram
ar, F

L 
33027 

R
P

T
 

49893 
08/12/2013 

Jean F
rancois, 

07/26/1986 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

210 N
w

 14T
h A

ve 
B

oynton B
each, F

L 
33435 

G
eneau 

R
P

T
 

49894 
08/12/2013 

Lalanne, S
tanley 

03/26/1977 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

396 W
isteria C

t 
D

eltona. 
F

L 
32738 

R
P

T
 

49895 
08/12/2013 

M
artines, K

ristina 
07/23/1987 

4195W
. Lakem

ary B
lvd 

Lake M
ary, F

L 
32746 

M
arie 

R
P

T
 

49896 
08/12/2013 

P
hilogene, K

eyonta 
08/06/1990 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
4028 45T

h Lane 
V

ero B
each, F

L 
32967 

K
im

 

R
P

T
 

49897 
08/12/2013 

P
han, P

aula 
04/01/1992 

8015 T
urkey Lake R

d S
te 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

300 

R
P

T
 

49898 
08/13/2013 

T
uite 

D
onna M

arie 
09/14/1 957 

175 5 
B

arfield 
M

arco Island 
F

L 
34145 

R
P

T
 

49899 
08/13/2013 

S
pence 

D
inelis A

nne 
07/08/1 978 

W
algreens 

40079 H
w

y 27 
D

avenport 
F

L 
33859 

R
P

T
 

49900 
08/13/2013 

H
odges. A

shley 
04/26/1 989 

O
ther 

B
rew

ster T
echnical C

enter 5602 W
 K

nights G
riffin R

d 
P

lant C
ity. F

L 
33565 

E
sther 

R
P

T
 

49901 
08/13/2013 

D
yson, Jessica 

09/18/1989 
W

algreens 
6200 N

w
 7 A

ve 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33150 

A
rkilah 

R
P

T
 

49902 
08/13/2013 

T
orres-C

orredor, 
10/02/1 991 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket. 

3972 T
ow

n C
enter B

lvd 
O

rlando, F
L 

32837 

C
hristine M

agdalyn 
Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49903 
08/13/2013 

C
ostales S

antiago, 
03/14/1 995 

2850 B
erkshire C

ircle 
K

issim
m

ee, 
F

L 
34743 

F
abiola M

ileska 

R
P

T
 

49904 
08/13/2013 

F
erguson, Jasm

ine 
04/25/1992 

, 
700 N

e 6T
h 

A
ve 

D
elray B

each, F
L 

33483 

A
lexandria 

R
P

T
 

49905 
08/13/2013 

R
endon 

Y
esenia 

08/19/1 994 
2223E

 
M

arconi S
t 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33605 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/1 2/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of Q

uc!itv 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

K
 A

 
A

 
L

icc;ise 
for 2208 

; 
ilianiiacy 

Sort 
D

ate 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Page j5 of 47 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49906 
08/13/2013 

C
anales, E

lvin 
12/18/1 991 

101 
N

 M
ain S

t. 
B

elle G
lade, 

F
L 

33430 
B

onerge 

R
P

T
 

49907 
08/13/2013 

B
abcock, T

raci A
nne 

11/10/1987 
5945 U

s H
ighw

ay 301 
N

 
E

llenton, F
L 

34222 

R
P

T
 

49908 
08/13/2013 

B
ryant 

D
avid 

09/07/1 990 
128 E

 
B

randon B
lvd 

B
randon 

F
L 

33511 

A
ugustus 

R
P

T
 

49909 
08/13/2013 

W
eaver 

M
aria 

F
 

12/26/1955 
W

algreens 
1120 

N
 

T
am

iam
i T

rail 
N

okom
is 

F
L 

34275 

R
P

T
 

49910 
08/13/2013 

H
assan 

A
bdullah 

08/14/1993 
8015 T

urkey Lake R
d S

te 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32819 

300 

R
P

T
 

49911 
08/13/2013 

B
runson 

Q
uinelle 

04/10/1990 
5319 

E
 

18T
h A

ve 
T

am
pa 

F
L 33319 

Jacinda E
ssiah 

R
P

T
 

49912 
08/13/2013 

E
lahi 

S
um

ra 
04/29/1993 

8954 Lantana R
oad 

Lake W
orth 

FL
 

33467 

R
P

T
 

49913 
08/13/2013 

F
isher, D

eborah A
nn 

05/23/1963 
5642 F

ish H
aw

k C
rossing 

Lithia, F
L 

33547 
B

lvd 

R
P

T
 

49914 
08/13/2013 

S
tam

per, H
olly M

arie 
08/13/1988 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

2040 S
hepherd R

d 
M

ulberry, F
L 

33360 
Inc. 

R
P

T
 

49915 
08/13/2013 

B
arcelo, A

iled 
07/07i1989 

3103 B
iscayne B

lvd 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 

33137 

R
P

T
 

49916 
08/13/2013 

D
e La C

ruz, M
ariko 

01/07/1 994 
4016 N

 W
yom

ing A
ve 

T
am

pa, 
F

L 
33616 

Jordan D
enae 

R
P

T
 

49917 
08/13/2013 

G
racia, P

aula 
08/29/1 981 

2271 N
W

 26T
h S

t#6 
M

iam
i. F

L 
33142 

R
P

T
 

49918 
08/13/2013 

B
loom

 
C

ynthia K
ay 

01/21/1972 
682 C

ollier Lake C
ir 

S
ebastian 

F
L 

32958 

R
P

T
 

49919 
08/13/2013 

F
igueroa, A

lexander 
09/24/1 992 

72 16T
h A

ve S
w

 
Largo, 

F
L 

33770 
E

rnesto 

R
P

T
 

49920 
08/13/2013 

C
ook 

Lloyd A
nderson 

10/27/1993 
2 E

ast M
agnolia A

venue 
E

uslis 
F

L 
32726 

R
P

T
 

49921 
08/13/2013 

C
hutter, N

ikki S
hana 

07/15/1990 
1600 66T

h S
t N

 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 
33710 

R
P

T
 

49922 
08/13/2013 

C
aro 

D
iana C

arolina 
04/22/1991 

13960 Landstar B
lvd 

O
rlando 

F
L 

32824 

R
P

T
 

49923 
08/13/2013 

S
im

pson, P
enny 

02/24/1 964 
W

algreens 
100 N

w
 P

ark S
treet 

O
keechobee. F

L 
34972 

M
cdonald 

R
P

T
 

49924 
08/13/2013 

E
dw

ards-C
arlisle. 

03/09/1 994 
6767 U

s H
w

y 98 N
 

Lakeland, 
F

L 
33809 

T
ericka A

ngelique 
.. 

R
P

T
 

49925 
08/13/2013 

M
ejia, N

achtanapa 
08123/1985 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
2313 N

e 2N
d st#i 

P
om

pano B
each. F

L 

33062 

R
P

T
 

49926 
08/13/2013 

P
ekich, K

im
i M

ae 
'05/23/1983 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

4100 N
 W

ickham
 

R
d S

te 
M

elbourne, F
L 

32935 
Inc. 

109 

R
P

T
 

49927 
08/13/2013 

P
rice-S

loan, N
icole 

12/22/1988 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

' 
1200 Integra Landings D

r 
O

range C
ity, F

L 
32763 

R
enee 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

A
pt 302 

R
P

T
 

49928 
08/13/2013 

P
atail 

B
ushra 

07)05/1988 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
9462 E

denshire C
ircle 

O
rlando 

F
L 

32836 

R
P

T
 

49929 
08/13/2013 

M
ueller B

rittany Lynn 
08/27/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

4639W
 1S

t S
t 

S
anford 

F
L 

32771 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxlS

l 5:09/12/2013 11:2141 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uolily A
ssurance 

M
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
L

icense R
eport for 2208 

R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnidan 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
O

rder: 
D

ate 

P
age 36 of47 

R
P

T
 

49939 
0
8
/
1
4
/
2
0
1
3
 

N
a
r
a
n
j
o
.
 N

athalia 
07/2711 982 

W
al-M

art 
5350 G

rand 
C

ypress C
ii 

N
aples, F

L 34109 
A
p
t
 2
0
1
 

R
P

T
 

49940 
0
8
/
1
4
/
2
0
1
3
 

N
i
b
l
e
t
t
,
 
S
u
s
a
n
 

1
1
/
0
6
/
1
9
8
8
 

W
a
l
-
M
a
r
t
 

1
5
4
9
5
 P
a
n
a
m
a
 C
i
t
y
 

P
a
n
a
m
a
 C
i
t
y
 B
e
a
c
h
,
 
F
L
 

B
e
a
c
h
 P

kw
y 

3
2
4
1
3
 

R
P
T
 

49941 
0
8
/
1
4
/
2
0
1
3
 

M
cduffie, S

ylvia 
10/10/1960 

O
t
h
e
r
 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 8653 M

a
l
l
a
r
d
 R

eserve 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33614 

D
rive 

U
n
i
t
 204 

R
P

T
 

49942 
08/14/2013 

Lam
pkin 

T
igris 

09/02/1974 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 14408 H
ellenic D

r A
pt 104 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33613 

R
P

T
 

49943 
0
8
/
1
4
/
2
0
1
3
 

A
lm

eida, S
iboniso 

09/23/1 968 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 501 S
ussariah Leigh Lane 

O
rlando, F

L 
32818 

A
pt 207 

R
P

T
 

4
9
9
4
4
 

0
8
/
1
4
/
2
0
1
3
 

T
h
i
m
s
 
D
a
r
l
e
n
e
 
R
 

03/22/1 962 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 1272 H
ow

land B
lvd 

D
eltona 

F
L 

32738 

R
P

T
 

49945 
08/14/2013 

W
hite 

A
m

anda 
06/19/1988 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 2446 57T

h S
t 

S
arasota 

F
L 

34243 

R
P

T
 

49946 
08/14/2013 

W
iltshiie 

A
shlee 

09/30/1984 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

036 E
agles Landing 

Leesburg 
F

L 
34748 

R
P

T
 

49947 
0
8
/
1
4
/
2
0
1
3
 

Z
eng, F

an R
ong 

05/28/1 990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3446 Low

ell A
ve 

R
P

T
 

49948 
08/14/2013 

F
insted, B

rooke 
12/04/1992 

W
algreens 

1136 S
tockbridge W

ay 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32254 

W
est M

elbourne, F
L 

N
icole 

32904 

R
P

T
 

49949 
08/14/2013 

M
ilan 

Y
enisel 

05/02/1989 
2507 N

w
 16T

h S
t A

pt 331 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33125 

R
P

T
 

49950 
08/14/2013 

Lew
is 

P
hil D

acosta 
12/24/1976 

318W
 

C
olonial D

r 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32801 

R
P

T
 

49951 
08/14/2013 

M
ouer, M

ichelle Lea 
12/24/1970 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

9975 U
niversity P

kw
y A

pt 
P

ensacola, F
L 

32514 
21 

49952 
08/14/2013 

W
illiam

s-W
ebb, 

08/28/1983 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1591 

1591 Lane A
ve S

 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32210 

S
helly 

A
pt 16B

 1591 Lane A
ve S

 

A
pt 16B

 

F
lorida D

e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 o
f
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 

p
k
g
r
p
t
_
l
i
c
.
p
_
d
x
l
5
l
 5
:
0
9
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
3
 1
1
 '
2
1
 .
4
1
 
O
N
D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P
T
 

4
9
9
3
0
 

0
8
/
1
3
/
2
0
1
3
 

,
 M

artin, A
llysha Juliet 

'07/30/1988 
O

ther 
2419 

, 
11582 

R
i
v
e
r
s
t
o
n
e
 W
a
y
 

J
a
c
i
c
s
o
n
v
i
l
l
e
,
F
L
 
3
2
2
1
8
 

R
P
T
 

4
9
9
3
1
 

0
8
/
1
3
/
2
0
1
3
 

K
h
a
t
a
m
i
,
 
M
e
h
r
s
h
i
d
 

0
6
/
2
0
/
1
9
5
8
 

O
t
h
e
r
 

2
4
1
9
-
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 O
f
 F

lorida 
4
0
5
 W
a
y
m
o
n
t
 C

t S
uite 

Lake M
ary, F

L 
3
2
7
4
6
 

C
o
l
l
e
g
e
O
f
 P

harm
acy 

101 

R
P

T
 

49932 
0
8
/
1
3
/
2
0
1
3
 

M
ishler, N

icole 
09/15/1989 

W
a
l
g
r
e
e
n
s
 

9670 A
lice M

o
o
r
e
 W

ay 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32309 
E

lizabeth 
R

P
T

 
4
9
9
3
3
 

0
8
/
1
3
/
2
0
1
3
 

C
a
r
a
b
a
l
l
o
,
 S
a
n
e
l
 

0
1
/
1
4
/
1
9
8
4
 

5
3
5
1
 
S
p
e
c
t
a
c
u
l
a
r
 B
i
d
 
D
r
.
 

W
e
s
l
e
y
 C
h
a
p
e
l
,
 
F
L
 
3
3
5
4
4
 

O
s
c
a
r
 

L 
. 

-. 

R
P

T
 

49934 
08/14/2013 

P
agan 

D
avid 

06/25/1 980 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
8750 N

orth S
herm

an 
M

tram
ar 

F
L 

33025 
C

ircle A
p
t
.
 
1
0
6
 

R
P
T
 

49935 
08/14/2013 

N
oda 

Llipsi E
lvia 

02/24/1 966 
N

ot P
racticing In F

lorida 
T

allahassee 
F

L 
P

O
B

ox632O
 

, 
, 

32314-6320 

R
P

T
 

' 
49936 

08/14/2013 
N

ellis, K
ayleigh 

10/27/1993 
K

ash N
' K

arry F
ood 

5802 5802 14T
h S

t W
 

B
radenton, F

L 
34207 

R
enae 

S
t
o
r
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
 

R
P
T
 

4
9
9
3
7
 

0
8
/
1
4
/
2
0
1
3
 

P
o
n
t
i
n
g
 
M
a
l
l
o
r
y
 S
c
o
t
t
 
0
8
/
0
7
/
1
9
8
4
 

1
5
2
9
5
 
C
o
l
l
i
e
r
 B
l
v
d
 

N
a
p
l
e
s
 
F
L
 
3
4
1
1
9
 

R
P

T
 

49938 
08/14/2013 

'
 Lim

as, Y
a
d
i
r
a
 

:
0
7
/
1
2
/
1
9
8
6
 

O
t
h
e
r
 

P
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 T
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
 

4
3
5
1
 N
w
 9
T
h
 
S
t
 #
2
5
 

M
i
a
m
i
.
 
F
L
 
3
3
1
2
6
 

C
e
n
t
e
r
s
 

R
P
T
 



D
ivision of 

M
edica! Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
 Q

A
 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 U

cense R
eport for 2208 

R
egistered Pharm

acy 
7/1/2013-8/31/2013 

Sort 

Page 37 of47 

08/15/2013 
F

arra, Lydia K
aitlyn 

08/15/2013 
C

yw
inski. M

artha 
A

nne 
08/15/2013 

V
aldes, M

anuel 

08/15/2013 
A

lderm
an, C

arrie 
S

haIW
an 

08/15/2013 
S

tiff, Leonard Lew
is 

08/15/2013 
C

arbonell, C
aitlyn 

B
rooke 

C
ockrell, F

eticia 
E

vette 
C

lark. T
akala C

hante 

A
vila, Larissa 

M
ichelle 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49953 
08/14/2013 

D
elosreyes, 

09105/1 979 
510 F

lorida C
lub B

lvd A
pt 

S
aint A

ugustine, F
L 

M
aesperanza Lapid 

308 
32084 

R
P

T
 

49954 
08/14/2013 

B
ossick, H

eather 
05/14/1974 

W
algreens 

37544 D
aliha T

errace 
Z

ephyrhills, F
L 

33542 
Lynn 

R
P

T
 

49955 
08/14/2013 

A
lvarez H

andy 
03/29/1975 

O
ther 

H
enry B

rew
ster T

echnical 
6519 T

ravis B
lvd 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33610 

A
lexandra 

C
enter 

R
P

T
 

49956 
08/14/2013 

F
ernandez 

B
ertha 

10/25/1969 
O

ther 
C

om
plete P

harm
acy A

nd 
5829 N

w
 158T

h S
treet 

M
iam

i Lakes 
F

L 
33014 

M
edical S

olutions, Lic 

R
P

T
 

49957 
08/15/2013 

B
ell, T

ara Lynn 
09/16/1990 

O
ther 

F
irst C

oast T
echnical 

117 Lone O
ak T

rail 
P

alatka, F
L 

32177 
C

olle9e 

R
P

T
 

49958 
08/15/2013 

S
trasdin 

N
ancy A

nn 
02/19/1953 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

6736 G
ilm

an 
G

arden C
ity 

M
l 

48135 

R
P

T
 

49959 
08/15/2013 

W
iangkham

 
12/27/1986 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

5510 T
em

ple H
eights R

d 
T

em
ple T

errace 
F

L 
K

ornw
alee 

33617 

R
P

T
 

49960 
08/15/2013 

D
riggers, A

m
anda 

11/09/1990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
6011 

S
hetland R

d 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32277 

Lynn 

R
P

T
 

49961 
08/15/2013 

R
iley, K

yle S
teven 

10/0911990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
12550 E

clipse C
ourt 

N
ew

 P
ort R

ichey, 
F

L 
34654 

49962 
08/15/2013 

S
ilva, Y

ael E
speranza 

10/09/1992 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 

E
verest U

niversity 

R
 P

T
 

R
P

T
 

R
P

T
 

R
 P

T
 

R
P

T
 

R
P

T
 

R
 P

T
 

49963 

49964 

49965 

49966 

49967 

49968 

E
verest U

niversity 

F
ortis C

ollege 

21 64 N
w

 104T
h S

tA
pt# 

1 
M

iam
ia, F

L 
33147 

1253 C
ypress B

end C
ircle 

M
elbourne, F

L 
32934 

1113 G
arfield S

treet 

12374 N
w

 98 P
lace 

03/17/1994 
O

ther 

04/1 2/1 963 
O

ther 
M

elbourne, F
L 

32935 

09/1 8/1 976 
H

ialeah G
ardens, 

F
L 

33018 

02/22/1977 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
542325 U

s H
ighw

ay 
1 

C
allahan, F

L 
32011 

08/22/1 951 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

341 M
im

osa A
ve 

M
iddleburg 

F
L 

32068 

02/03/1995 
C

arem
ark F

lorida M
ail 

944 B
lackberry Ln 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32259 
P

harm
acy 

10/30/1984 
O

ther 
R

P
T

 
49969 

08/15/2013 
E

verest U
niversity 

3841 
K

ennedy C
ircle 

C
ocoa, F

L 
32926 

R
P

T
 

49970 
08/15/2013 

05/04/1 991 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

3760 C
artee S

t. 
C

ocoa, F
L 

32926 

R
P

T
 

49971 
08/15/2013 

01/05'l 991 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket 
5997 S

tirling R
oad 

D
avie 

F
L 

33024 
Inc. 

. 

R
P

T
 

49972 
08/15/2013 

C
oom

er 
E

llen D
aw

n 
02/06/1 973 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

36825 B
rook R

oad 
F

ruitland P
ark 

F
L 

34731 

R
P

T
 

49973 
08/15/2013 

S
ulik, B

randon 
12/15/1992 

W
al-M

art 
l954lhornhill R

dA
pt# 

W
esley C

hapel, F
L 

33544 

'M
ichael 

' 
211 

R
P

T
 

49974 
08/15/2013 

H
olton 

A
ngela Lynn 

09/15/1978 
7455 S

tate R
d 52 

B
ayonet P

oint 
F

L 
34667 

R
P

T
 

49975 
08/15/2013 

R
ios 

Y
am

iris 
04/14/1977 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
28552855W

 74 F
l 

H
ialeah 

F
L 

33018 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
3 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

iceilse R
eport for 

R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Soil. 
D

atc 

1 
7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

Pare 
38 sf47 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49976 
08/15/2013 

G
rigsby, M

atthew
 

01/24/1986 
: C

vs C
arem

ark 
4684 H

ighw
ay 90 

M
arianna, 

F
L 

32446 
T

yler 
R

P
T

 
49977 

08/15/2013 
W

right, 
S

haron 
03/03/1978 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

1430 
N

e 170 S
treet A

pt. 
N

orth M
aim

i, F
L 

33161 

#325 

R
P

T
 

49978 
08/15/2013 

B
ailey S

igler T
am

m
y 

07/09/1971 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

2804 S
w

eet S
prings S

t 
D

eltona 
F

L 
32738 

S
herrell 

R
P

T
 

49979 
08/15/2013 

H
effren 

V
ictor E

 
01/16/1963 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
1500 

N
 

Lockw
ood R

idge 
S

arasota 
F

L 
34237 

B
randon C

am
pus 

R
d A

pt 202 

R
P

T
 

49980 
08/15/2013 

B
utler 

P
am

ela Jean 
05/27/1 963 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
6421 B

lack D
airy R

d Lot 
S

effner 
F

L 33584 
B

randon C
am

pus 
23 

R
P

T
 

49981 
08/15/2013 

A
rm

strong 
A

pril 
08/03/1 988 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

239 G
olfpoint D

rive 
Lake P

lacid 
F

L 
33852 

A
lane 

R
P

T
 

49982 
08/15/2013 

A
rm

brust. C
onstance 

09/08/1990 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 8164 S
e C

roft C
ircle N

o. 
H

obe S
ound, F

L 
33455 

R
ose 

B
2 

R
P

T
 

49983 
08/15/2013 

A
nthony, C

heryl 
02/03/1963 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
518 5t8 N

apa V
alley 

V
airico, F

L 
33594 

B
ryant 

B
randon C

am
pus 

C
ircle 

R
P

T
 

49984 
08/15/2013 

D
ixon, N

icholas K
 

12/31/1981 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 12160 92N
d A

venue 
S

em
inole 

F
L 

33772 

R
P

T
 

49985 
08/15/2013 

F
ernandez, A

ngelica 
09/08/1 991 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
13259 R

oyal G
eorge A

ve 
O

dessa, 
F

L 
33556 

M
iguel 

R
P

T
 

49986 
08/15/2013 

F
lexon, K

rystal 
08/20/1 987 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

12517 12517 P
ark B

lvd 
S

em
inole, F

L 
33776 

N
ichole 

R
P

T
 

49987 
08/15/2013 

C
antu 

Juellysia 
10/15/1989 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

15550 S
an C

arlos B
lvd 

F
ort M

yers 
F

L 
33908 

R
P

T
 

49988 
08/15/2013 

C
rarice, S

abrina 
07/16/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

15550 S
an C

arlos B
lvd 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33908 

K
athryn 

R
P

T
 

49989 
08/15/2013 

P
rieto 

Jesus A
 

02/18/1993 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
14230 S

w
 161 

P
1 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33196 

R
P

T
 

49990 
08/15/2013 

W
hetstone, A

pril 
11/15/1981 

'O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
801 

5. F
ederal H

w
y. A

pt. 
Lake W

orth, F
L 

33460 

103 

R
P

T
 

49991 
08/15/2013 

C
harles, G

arvey 
07/01/1 992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

19070 S
outh T

am
iam

i 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33908 

T
rail 

R
P

T
 

49992 
08/15/2013 

S
antana, Z

uleida 
- 

- 
03/04/1972 

O
ther 

E
verest Institude 

1940 Leah S
tar R

d 
A

stor, F
L 

32102 

R
P

T
 

49993 
08/15/2013 

T
erranova, 

Ivan 
08/26/1970 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

7070 7070 N
w

 177 S
treet 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33015 

E
duardo 

A
pt 101 

R
P

T
 

49994 
08/15/2013 

C
andelario, Jennifer 

05/25/1977 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity T

am
pa 

5313 Landover B
lvd 

S
pringhill, 

F
L 

34609 

M
arie 

R
P

T
 

49995 
08/15/2013 

B
utler 

M
ichael T

erell 
12/23/1987 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
1016 G

ranville C
t U

pper 
S

t 
P

eterburg 
F

L 
33761 

R
P

T
 

49996 
08/16/2013 

G
il, Jessenia 

12/26/1992 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
1440E

 M
ow

ry D
r. 

H
om

estead, F
L 

33033 

- 
. 

R
P

T
 

49997 
08/16/2013 

A
licea 

S
arangely 

04/03/1 991 
W

algreens 
426 Larkspur C

ourt 
N

iceville 
F

L 
32578 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
13 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



O
ivision of O

uafily 

M
 O

Jj 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
R

eport for 2208 
R

cgistercd Pharm
acy 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Soit O

rder: 
D

ate 

P
age 39 of 47 

D
A

ngelo, G
eorge 

09/07/1 950 
O

ther 
F

rancis 
B

atchelor, C
olleen 

05/17/1988 
O

ther 
N

oelle 

07/04/1990 
O

ther 

02/09/1990 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket. 
Inc. 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

49998 
08/16/2013 

A
m

aral. Jessica Lee 
11/20/1984 

P
harm

acy Inc 
- 

9371 C
ypress Lake D

rive 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33919 

R
P

T
 

49999 
08/16/2013 

G
arcia 

H
ector H

ugo 
04/1 2/1 990 

2521 Lightfoot R
d 

W
im

aum
a 

F
L 

33598 

R
P

T
 

F
erris 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

197 ('p 4T
h ('f 

B
ench 

F
l 

R
P

T
 

50001 
08/16/2013 

H
urtado B

ibiana 
11/22/1958 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
6357 S

em
inole T

er 
M

argate 
F

L 
33063 

R
P

T
 

50002 
08/16/2013 

C
rayton 

T
rinity 

02/22/1 991 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

5301 B
roken P

ine C
ircle 

O
rlando 

F
L 

32818 

A
nisha 

R
P

T
 

50003 
08/16/2013 

C
intra 

Y
elenis 

11/17/1980 
W

al M
art 

3035 H
illview

 S
t 

S
arasota 

F
L 

34239 

R
P

T
 

50004 
08/16/2013 

A
lleyne 

R
udy 

12/18/1983 
W

algreens 
35344 S

arah Lynn D
r 

A
pt 

D
ade C

ity 
F

L 
33525 

M
artezkeldon 

202 

R
P

T
 

50005 
08/16/2013 

B
aker 

W
arren D

avid 
12/15/1985 

O
ther 

E
verest U

nversity 
12662 C

astle H
ill D

rive 
T

am
pa 

F
L 

33624 
B

randon C
am

pus 

R
P

T
 

50006 
08/16/2013 

E
verest U

niversity 
287 A

utum
n T

rail 
P

ort O
range. F

L 
32129 

R
P

T
 

50007 
08/16/2013 

U
niversity O

f 
N

ot P
racticing 

In F
lorida 

T
allahassee, F

L 

F
lorida-C

ollege O
f 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
32314-6320 

P
harm

acy 

R
P

T
 

50008 
08/16/2013 

D
el R

osario, 
E

verest O
range P

ark 
1099 C

actus C
ut R

oad 
M

iddleburg. 
F

L 
32068 

R
osea n ne 

R
P

T
 

50009 
08/16/2013 

D
elzeith, N

ycole 
5565 P

entail C
ircle 

T
am

pa. 
F

L 
33625 

C
hristene 

R
P

T
 

50010 
08/16/2013 

R
uhio, Jennifer 

12/30/1990 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1432 N
e 13T

h A
ve 

F
t Lauderdale, F

L 
33304 

R
P

T
 

50011 
08/16/2013 

B
oho, A

ngela K
aitlyn 

01/25/1993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
302 E

ast Jam
es Lee 

C
restview

, F
L 

32539 
B

oulevard 

R
P

T
 

50012 
08/16/2013 

B
row

n. S
arah 

04/24/1976 
O

ther 
S

anford B
row

n Institute 
6105 A

lice A
venue 

G
ibsoriton, F

L 
33534 

E
lizabeth 

T
am

pa 

R
P

T
 

50013 
08/16/2013 

H
arding, M

ussaya 
12/06/1985 

ll98G
ilm

ore D
rA

pt#B
 

K
eyW

est, 
F

L 
33040 

S
aw

angpop 
. 

. 

R
P

T
 

50014 
08/16/2013 

G
arcia, M

ichael A
 

08/14/1975 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

2524 S
pring 

H
arbor A

pt 
M

oLirit D
ora. 

F
L 

32757 

12 

R
P

T
 

50015 
08/16/2013 

H
ernandez C

ueto, 
04/05/1991 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1156 H
ancock C

reek 
C

ape C
oral, F

L 
33909 

K
atia 

. 
S

outh B
lvd A

pt # 103 

R
P

T
 

50016 
08/16/2013 

G
arcia, Leyanis 

07/08/1983 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1836 S

w
 Leslie G

In 
Lake C

ity, F
L 

32025 

R
P

T
 

50017 
08/16/2013 

D
as, T

im
othy John 

08/12/1987 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
9125 S

e M
ystic C

ove T
er 

H
obe S

ound, F
L 

33455 
Inc. 

R
P

T
 

50018 
S

tanley 
M

anah 
02/09/1 994 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket 

6030 14T
h S

t W
 

B
radenton 

F
L 

34207 

K
risten 

Inc. 

R
P

T
 

50019 
08/16/2013 

D
avid 

S
ofia M

aria 
08/13/1989 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

344 B
enson S

t 
N

aples 
F

L 
34113 

R
P

T
 

50020 
08)16/2013 

T
aher 

H
azem

 
02/24/1 981 

W
algreens 

10914 S
cott M

ill R
oad 

Jacksonville 
F

L 
32223 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
.dxl5 15:09/12/2013 

11 .2141 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

M
edicci O

uciify 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 

R
eport for 

R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnidan 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

idci: 
Liccnsc D

ate 

Page 40 of 47 

R
P

T
 

50023 
08/16/2013 

R
am

os S
ierra, M

ayra 
09/18/1964 

R
P

T
 

50024 
08/16/2013 

W
aldron, D

am
ion 

02/11/1 988 
E

lias 

R
P

T
 

50025 
08/16/2013 

S
m

others, T
orey 

R
P

T
 

50026 
08/16/2013 

R
P

T
 

50027 
08/16/2013 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
3 112141 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

50021 
08/16/2013 

C
arrera, Jenny N

ilda 
01/26/1990 

- 
2611 

S
olano A

ve #203 
H

ollyw
ood, F

L 
33024 

R
P

T
 

50022 
08/16/2013 

S
olom

on, R
ichard 

03/02/1987 
F

am
ily C

are D
iscount 

3633 C
ortez R

d W
 B

-9 
B

radenton, 
F

L 34210 
A

rm
ando 

P
harm

acy 

532 E
ast 51 

S
t 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33013 

1982 S
w

 M
callister Ln 

P
ort S

aint Lucie 
F

L 
34953 

12/16/1985 
12230 S

w
2lO

S
t. 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33177 
Jam

al 
A

lvarez M
ora 

Y
anai 

09/26/1 978 
495 N

w
 72T

h A
ve #309 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33126 

C
havez-T

rejo, 
09/02/1 992 

460 U
s H

w
y 17-92 N

 
H

aines C
ity, F

L 
33844 

Y
anelith 

R
P

T
 

50028 
08/16/2013 

S
algado, M

arco 
:12/19/1977 

S
outh M

iam
i P

harm
acy 

6050 S
. D

ixie H
w

y 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33143 

A
ntonio 

H
enderson, M

arisella 
10/15/1973 

1236 C
ostal C

reek C
t 

C
ristina 

R
 P

T
 

R
 P

T
 

R
P

T
 

50029 
08/16/2013 

R
P

T
 

50030 
08/19/2013 

S
teedm

an, R
ebecca 

12/15/1992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
D

elynn 

50031 

50032 

08/19/2013 
R

obinson, V
icki 

Lynn 
07/24/1 956 

W
inn 

D
ixie 

08/19/2013 
V

elez, A
ngeline 

02/14/1992 
C

hristine 
R

P
T

 
50033 

08/19/2013 
R

itz, S
herrie M

ichelle 
11/04/1965 

R
P

T
 

50034 
08/19/2013 

S
m

ith, Latoya M
ireya 

11/05/1986 

O
rlando, F

L 
32828 

866 D
Llnn A

venue 

625 
N

 
C

ollier 

2050 
E

 O
sceola P

kw
y 

Jacksonville, 
F

L 
32218 

M
arco Island, F

L 
34112 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34743 

Inc. 

50037 
08/19/2013 

W
right, M

atthew
 T

yler 
03/11/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

Indian R
iver C

ounty 
14001 S

tate R
d 70 E

ast 
O

keechobee, F
L 

34972 

S
chool D

istrict 

H
enry W

. B
rew

ster 
906 M

aydell ct 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33619 

T
echnical C

enter 
W

algreens 
1250 

N
e Jensen B

ch B
lvd 

Jensen B
each, F

L 
34957 

R
P

T
 

50035 
08/19/2013 

W
alton, K

ristina 
08/15/1991 

N
icole 

R
P

T
 

50036 
08/19/2013 

T
ow

nsend. T
aesu S

 
07/22/1955 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

2125 
E

 C
ounty R

d 540 A
 

Lakeland, F
L 

33813 

R
P

T
 

50038 
08/19/2013 

T
hom

as-F
rancis, 

11/27/1964 
Lileth Jacquline 

R
P

T
 

50039 
08/19/2013 

R
aw

ls, N
esham

iny 
12/05/1990 

S
uphronia 

R
P

T
 

50040 
08/19/2013 

R
usso, A

lexis N
icole 

06/20/1 994 

R
P

T
 

50041 
08/19/2013 

W
illard, C

hades 
03/07/1946 

R
P

T
 

50042 
08/19/2013 

W
orkm

an, A
shley 

. 09/03/1 986 
D

iana 

1819 'N
est T

ennessee 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32304 

S
treet 

E
versi U

niversity 
5560 A

rnold P
alm

er D
r 

O
rlando, F

L 
32811 

A
pt 533 

T
allahassee C

om
m

 C
oIl. 

919 M
ilano C

ir A
pt 202 

B
randon, 

F
L 

33511 

- 
S

untree P
harm

acy 
7640 N

 W
ickham

 R
d #116 

M
elbourne, F

L 
32940 

O
ther 

S
outh S

uburban C
ollege 

8571 
Julian Lane 

N
aples, F

L 
34114 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

- 
2303 S

outh R
adcliffe 

B
radenton, F

L 
34207 



D
ivision of 

M
edico! Q

uo!ify 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

A
 

IN
cw

 L
iccnsc R

eport 
2208 

: R
egistered 

T
ed iieian 

Sort 

IV
 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
—

 
P

aoe4l of47 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

50043 
08/19/2013 

B
yrd, B

rittany 
03/30/1 989 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2677 O
ld B

ainbridge R
d 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32303 

D
anielle 

A
pt 932-C

 

R
P

T
 

50044 
08/20/2013 

B
ouza 

Y
esenia 

02127/1 990 
W

algreens 
2025 C

alais D
rive A

pt 10 
M

iam
i B

each 
F

L 
33141 

R
P

T
 

50045 
08/20/2013 

F
ernandez, R

oberto 
08/28/1 992 

2660 E
 H

w
y 50 

C
lerm

ont, F
L 

34711 
Joel 

R
P

T
 

50046 
08/20/2013 

D
iaz 

Joann D
enise 

04/14/1992 
10510 N

w
 30T

h C
t 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33147 

R
P

T
 

50047 
08/20/2013 

H
aro 

N
icole M

 
04/13/1986 

2295 E
ast B

ay D
rive 

Largo 
F

L 
33771 

R
P

T
 

50048 
08/21/2013 

S
carpaci 

S
am

uel 
07/11/1991 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket 

1321 
S

 M
iram

ar A
ve A

pt # 
Indialantic 

F
L 

32903 
C

icero Jr 
Inc 

6 

R
P

T
 

50049 
08/21/2013 

M
atilla 

Y
acenia 

08/30/1984 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
389 

Ludlam
 

D
rive 

M
iam

i S
prings 

F
L 

33166 

R
P

T
 

50050 
08/21/2013 

S
alom

 
R

ichard 
11/10/1982 

W
algreens 

4210 E
ast S

t R
d 64 

B
radenton 

F
L 

34208 
P

atrick 
R

P
T

 
50051 

08/21/2013 
K

okoszynski, 
04/26/1 984 

9600 P
arksouth C

t S
te 

O
rlando, F

L 
32837 

Josephine C
atherine 

100 

R
P

T
 

50052 
08/21/2013 

M
unoz, 

E
ileen 

12/12/1 990 
16800 S

w
 88T

h S
treet 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33196 
B

arbara 

R
P

T
 

50053 
08/21/2013 

Z
olm

an, N
athan R

yan 
02/25/1991 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
!orida 

R
E

T
 

50054 
08/21/2013 

S
tephen, G

irino 
03/22/1988 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

R
P

T
 

50055 
08/21/2013 

V
alentin, K

arla Joan 
01/1 8/1 989 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

R
P

T
 

50056 
08/21/2013 

P
atel,S

hivam
 

03/29/1992 
C

vsC
arem

ark 

R
P

T
 

50057 
08/21/2013 

M
ahan, C

hloe R
ose 

12/01/1 992 
A

lexis 
R

P
T

 
50058 

08/22/2013 
Julia, W

illiam
 

E
 

02/18/1970 

R
P

T
 

50059 
08/22/2013 

H
ong, Jessica 

02/27/1992 

R
P

T
 

50060 
08/22/2013 

D
e H

aza, M
illy 

12/19/1984 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 

R
P

T
 

50061 
08/22/2013 

C
ortez, A

dam
 M

ichael 
03/15/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

R
P

T
 

50062 
08/22/2013 

C
ouch, E

m
ily Louise 

12/19/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 

R
E

T
 

50063 
08/22/2013 

F
ritz 

A
shley Lynn 

03/26/1 991 
W

algreens 

R
P

T
 

50064 
08/22/2013 

B
rill, E

rin N
ichole 

04/19/1981 

2461 
E

. G
ulf T

o Lake H
w

y 

6170 Lakeland H
ighlands 

R
oad 

1300 S
w

 S
t. Lucie B

lvd 

1999 O
sceola P

arkw
ay 

4100 M
ilitary T

rail 

Inverness, F
L 

34453 

Lakeland, F
L 

33812 

P
ort S

t. Lucie, F
L 

34986 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34743 

Jupiter, F
L 

33458 

1458 N
w

 97 S
t 

M
iam

i, 
F

L 33147 

5007 N
w

 45T
h 

R
d A

pt 106 
G

ainesville, F
L 

32606 

3145 N
w

 82N
d S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 33147 

714 G
ray S

treet S
outh 

G
ulfport, F

L 
33707 

5 G
arden S

treet 
T

itusville, 
F

L 
32796 

5608 G
ranada D

r A
pt 150 

S
arasota, 

F
L 

34231 

733 
E

 T
ennessee S

t 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32308 

9239 H
oenstine A

ve 
O

rlando, F
L 

32824 

1337 H
w

y 90 W
 

D
efuniak S

prings, F
L 

32433 

R
P

T
 

50065 
08/22/2013 

C
arter 

Jessica N
icole 

06/26/1995 

R
P

T
 

50066 
08/22/2013 

M
iller, A

drienna 
07/07/1 991 

S
haree 

R
P

T
 

50067 
08/22/2013 

M
cnatt S

arah E
m

ily 
06/1 9/1 994 

1921 
S

 
A

lafaya T
rI 

O
rlando 

F
L 32828 

R
P

T
 

50068 
08/22/2013 

D
ickie A

lex B
urton 

06/1 8/1 985 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3544 H

orace A
ve 

N
orth P

ort 
F

L 
34286 

R
P

T
 

50069 
08/22/2013 

B
ow

m
an 

P
aige M

arie 
11/18/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

14411 P
alm

 B
each B

lvd 
F

ort M
yers 

F
L 

33905 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
3 1121:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

A
 

A
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 
R

egistered I'harniacy T
echnician 

Sort 
D

ate 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
—

 
f47 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

—
o 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

50070 
08/22/2013 

C
larke, R

eginia 
02/24/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

5502 E
ast F

ow
ler A

venue 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33617 

R
P

T
 

50071 
08/22/2013 

H
ails, M

arybeth 
07/31/1956 

T
arget 

- 
2340 H

ighw
ay 77 

P
anam

a C
ity, F

L 
32405 

C
orporation;T

arget 
cot porauoii 

R
P

T
 

50072 
08/22/2013 

B
ryant 

B
rittney 

06/1 9/1 990 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
645 Ives D

airy R
oad A

pt 
M

iam
i 

F
L 

33179 
313 

R
P

T
 

50073 
08/22/2013 

B
revard 

S
herrick 

05/26/1988 
O

ther 
S

anford B
row

n Institute 
2922 E

 
20T

h A
ve 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33605 

T
am

pa 
R

P
T

 
50074 

08/22/2013 
A

m
os 

C
handra 

07/22/1 978 
W

algreens 
10634 V

ersailles B
lvd 

W
ellington 

F
L 

33449 

R
P

T
 

50075 
1 

08/22/2013 
M

oody, B
rentley 

08/21/1 995 
6371 

P
ark A

venue 
M

ilton, F
L 

32570 
A

ustin 
R

P
T

 
50076 

08/22/2013 
Johnson 

Lori Lynn 
09/07/1 972 

4717 S
an Juan A

ve 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32210 

R
P

T
 

50077 
08/22/2013 

P
ate 

C
oleen M

ichelle 
01/18/1995 

6438 C
ypress S

t 
M

ilton 
F

L 
32570 

R
P

T
 

50078 
08/22/2013 

A
uza, Juan P

ablo 
01/12/1989 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

13991 
N

 C
leveland A

ve 
N

orth F
ort M

yers, 
F

L 
33903 

R
P

T
 

50079 
08/22/2013 

Lucier 
D

avid A
rthur 

11/07/1945 
1101 

8T
h A

ve \N
 

P
alm

etto 
F

L 
34221 

R
P

T
 

50080 
08/22/2013 

Jackson, JodyA
lethia 

0413011990 
12401 M

iram
ar P

arkw
ay 

M
iram

ar. F
L 

33027 

R
P

T
 

50081 
08/22/2013 

D
ardar, T

eresa K
ay 

11/lO
i'1971 

O
ther 

2419-U
niversity O

f 
2407 S

outhern Links D
rive 

F
lem

ing Island, 
F

L 
32003 

F
lorida-C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 
R

P
T

 
50082 

08/22/2013 
D

iaz-B
alcazar. 

08/01/1 977 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

9098 S
able R

idge C
ourt 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32244 
W

endy 
R

P
T

 
50083 

08/22/2013 
G

etchell, S
tephen 

12/27/1992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1621 S

outhw
est 13T

h 
G

ainesville, 
F

L 
32608 

G
regory 

S
treet 

R
P

T
 

50084 
08/22/2013 

W
illiam

s 
P

recious S
 

10/1 6/1 988 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

5412 G
alw

ay D
r 

C
harlotte 

N
C

 
28215 

R
P

T
 

50085 
08/22/2013 

C
ole 

Joyce 
01/11/1964 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

10778 S
w

224T
err 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33170 

R
P

T
 

50086 
08/22/2013 

R
oberson, Jam

es 
07/15/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

3501 
54T

h A
venue S

outh 
S

t 
P

etersburg, F
L 

33711 
C

urtis Iii 
R

P
T

 
50087 

08/22/2013 
S

m
ith, B

rittney 
10/02/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

8700 U
s H

ighw
ay 301 

N
 

P
arrish, F

L 
34219 

N
ichole 

R
P

T
 

50088 
08/22/2013 

R
agan, C

ourtney 
06/29/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

611 S
outh H

ow
ard A

ve. 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33606 

A
llane 

R
P

T
 

50089 
08/22/2013 

S
tribling, Jazm

yne 
05/11/1991 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

242 
N

 O
rlando A

ve 
M

aitland, 
F

L 
32751 

M
arie 

Inc. 

R
P

T
 

50090 
08/23/2013 

G
affar 

T
anzim

 
08/09/1 994 

6025 Lake W
orth R

d 
G

reenacres 
F

L 
33463 

R
P

T
 

50091 
08/23/2013 

E
vanoff, S

tephanie 
09/28/1993 

- 
10801 S

tarkey R
d #200 

S
em

inole, F
L 

33777 
A

nn 
R

P
T

 
50092 

08/23/2013 
G

rayford 
D

aw
n M

arie 
10/03/1993 

250 C
itrus T

ow
er B

lvd 
C

lerm
ont 

F
L 

34711 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rptjicp_dxl5l 5:09112/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

ID
 



D
ivision of 

M
edico! Q

uolity 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

epoi'ting System
 

k A
 

N
ew

 
2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy 
O

rder. O
riginal 

D
ate 

IV
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Pafle 43 of 47 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

50093 
08/23/2013 

F
isher, D

anielle Lynn 
03/11/1994 

280 S
w

 P
ort St Lucie B

lvd 
P

ort Saint Lucie, F
L 

34984 

R
PT

 
50094 

08/23/2013 
B

oone, M
arkichia 

03/29/1989 
9824 

S
 M

ilitary T
rail 

B
oynton B

each, F
L 

33436 
Juarieta 

R
P

T
 

50095 
08/23/2013 

G
erges 

S
ilvia 

01/30/1 976 
12689 C

haH
enger P

kw
y 

O
rlando 

F
L 

32826 
B

arsoum
 

: 
S

te 100 

R
P

T
 

50096 
08/23/2013 

B
ardw

ell 
K

athryne 
06/03/1 987 

741 
S

 O
rlando A

ve 
W

inter P
ark 

F
L 

32789 
Lorraine 

R
P

T
 

50097 
08/23/2013 

C
anola F

lores 
08/29/1992 

11936W
 F

orest H
ill B

lvd 
W

ellington 
F

L 
33414 

M
arjorie V

iviana 

R
P

T
 

50098 
08/23/2013 

B
yron 

F
rancina 

02/03/1994 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
1240 N

w
 7T

h C
t 

F
lorida C

ity 
F

L 
33034 

R
P

T
 

50099 
08/23/2013 

K
elly, S

hante 
01/11/1990 

O
ther 

S
anford B

row
n Institute 

1314 E
. Louise A

ve 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33603 

M
aquitta 

T
am

pa 
R

P
T

 
50100 

08/23/2013 
P

arker, Lam
ichael 

06/11/1990 
O

ther 
S

anford B
row

n Institute 
5403 W

illiam
s G

rant W
ay 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33610 
T

am
pa 

A
pt 30 

R
P

T
 

50101 
08/23/2013 

M
cintyre, P

eggy S
ue 

05/20/1963 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1186 S
herbrook D

rive 
D

eltona. F
L 

32725 

R
P

T
 

50102 
08/23/2013 

M
ufleh, A

m
ani 

12/03/1992 
C

vsC
arem

ark 
11691 

11691 T
im

berw
ood 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33428 
M

arw
an 

R
d. 

R
P

T
 

50103 
08/23/2013 

K
eH

ogg, A
lyssa 

09/06/1 987 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida- 
695 B

attersea D
rive 

S
aint A

ugustine, F
L 

A
shley 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
32095 

R
P

T
 

50104 
08/23/2013 

M
iddleton, K

attie 
06/08/1993 

O
ther 

2419 
544 B

ison C
ircle 

A
popka 

F
L 

32712 
M

arie 

R
P

T
 

50105 
08/23/2013 

Ibrahim
 

R
ania M

 
02/06/1980 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 1625 G

ray B
ark D

rive 
O

ldsm
ar 

F
L 

34677 

R
P

T
 

50106 
08/23/2013 

P
ugh. F

aquita K
ateria 

10/20/1985 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity N

orth 
273 S

prings C
olony C

ircle 
A

ltam
onte, 

F
L 

32714 
C

am
pus 

A
pt#238 

R
P

T
 

50107 
08/23/2013 

K
ravcov, C

atherine 
03/01/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1040 10T
h A

ve. 
D

eland, 
F

L 
32724 

A
nn 

R
P

T
 

50108 
08/23/2013 

P
erez D

iaz, Liudrnila 
12/14/1977 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

6272 N
w

 186 S
treet A

pt. 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33015 

101 

R
P

T
 

50109 
08/23/2013 

M
adison 

B
rianna 

12/3111991 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 
1909 F

 Jean S
treet 

T
am

pa 
F

L 
33610 

R
P

T
 

50110 
08/23/2013 

P
antages, Jason 

01/17/1990 
W

algreens 
35553 U

s H
ighw

ay 19 
N

 
P

alm
 H

arbor, F
L 

34684 

R
P

T
 

50111 
08/23/2013 

M
cnaney 

K
ieran E

m
il 

11/22/1984 
C

vs C
arem

aik 
350 H

erons R
un D

rive 
S

aiasota 
F

L 
34232 

- 
A

partm
ent 521 

R
P

T
 

50112 
08/23/2013 

K
elly 

K
evin P

atrick 
11/12/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

8137 124T
h S

t 
S

em
inole 

F
L 33772 

R
P

T
 

50113 
08/23/2013 

A
bu N

asser 
N

ajw
a B

 
01/15/1991 

W
algreens 

1410W
 V

irginia Ln 
C

learw
ater 

F
L 

33759 

R
P

T
 

50114 
08/23/2013 

H
ow

ard 
Joshua 

06/05/1985 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

3604 B
landing B

lvd 
Jacksonville 

F
L 

32210 
Louis 

Jacksonville 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/1 2/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of Q

ucU
tv A

ssurance 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

i\,4 
A

 
L

iccnse R
eport foi- 

Pharniacy T
echnician 

O
rder. O

riginal 
D

ate 

I 
7/1/2013-8/31/2013 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

P
age 44 of 47 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

50115 
08/23/2013 

H
erriandez, M

aria D
e 

02/08/1 987 
10846 K

ensigton P
ark 

R
iverview

, 
F

L 
33578 

Los A
ngeles 

A
venue 

R
P

T
 

50116 
08/23/2013 

P
erry. C

arol 
L 

03/28/1966 
O

ther 
R

ite A
id P

harm
acy 

3867 
S

. Linw
ood T

errace 
Inverness, F

L 
34452 

I ecliniciaii 
raining 

P
rogram

 
R

P
T

 
50117 

08/26/2013 
W

ilson 
G

rant T
yler 

06/14/1994 
R

aciford M
 

Locklin 
5905 S

tephanie D
rive 

M
ilton 

F
L 

32570 
T

echnicalC
enter 

R
P

T
 

50118 
08/26/2013 

S
ingley 

Jesslyn E
liza 

03/22/1995 
R

adford M
 

Locklin 
4845 S

idney Lane 
Jay 

F
L 

32565 
T

echnical C
enter 

R
P

T
 

50119 
08/26/2013 

W
ahlquist 

H
yrum

 
05/14/1 996 

G
olden P

harm
acy 

13005 N
w

 Joe C
hason 

B
ristol 

F
L 

32321 
P

atrick 
C

ircle 
R

P
T

 
50120 

08/26/2013 
S

tapp, H
eather 

05/06/1984 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
5240 W

est S
tate R

d 46 
S

anford, 
F

L 
32771 

N
ichelle 

Inc 

R
P

T
 

50121 
08/26/2013 

S
anabria H

errera. 
02/09/1 991 

F
lorida E

ducation Institute 
1750 

N
Iw

 27T
h A

ve A
pt 

M
iam

i. F
L 

33125 
K

etty 
301 

R
P

T
 

50122 
08/26/2013 

S
chw

artzfisher, Linda 
12/07/1950 

B
arry U

niv 
3700 C

om
m

erce P
arkw

ay 
M

irarnar, F
L 

33025 
M

arie 
R

P
T

 
50123 

08/26/2013 
W

alker, B
rianna 

08/20/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
4550 Lyons R

d 
C

oconut C
reek, F

L 
33073 

R
P

T
 

50124 
08/26/2013 

W
allace. S

tephanie 
10/18/1 983 

Lincoln T
echnical C

enter 
694 S

eabrook C
t #202 

A
ltam

onte S
prings, F

L 
R

enee 
32714 

R
P

T
 

50125 
08/27/2013 

D
urham

, C
harlie 

10/13/1961 
2280 R

obin H
ood R

d 
M

acon, G
A

 
31206 

R
P

T
 

50126 
08/27/2013 

S
anchez, M

ailen 
10/06/1978 

W
algreens 

998 S
w

 67 A
ve 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33144 

R
P

T
 

50127 
08/27/2013 

Q
uiles A

rroyo. N
ydia 

10/27/1 978 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
4402 C

urry F
ord R

d 
O

rlando, F
L 

32812 
Inc. 

R
P

T
 

50128 
08/27/2013 

G
rossett, C

oretta 
10/01/1976 

O
ther 

F
ortis Institute 

2701 S
unrise Lakes D

r 
S

unrise, F
L 

33322 

. 
l 

R
P

T
 

50129 
08/27/2013 

R
odriguez, Y

uleisy 
06/08/1982 

O
ther 

S
outh D

ade S
kills C

enter 
213 

S
t 9700 S

w
 213 

S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33189 

R
P

T
 

50130 
08/27/2013 

S
ankar 

S
hennel 

10/03/1 993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2621 Judge Loop 

K
issim

m
ee 

F
L 

34743 

R
P

T
 

50131 
08/27/2013 

W
atkins 

A
rtravious 

08/21/1993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
838 A

ngela A
ve A

pt 
E

 
R

ockledge 
F

L 
32955 

R
P

T
 

50132 
08/27/2013 

R
ichardson 

G
erren 

K
 

11/14/1987 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 
8723 D

el R
ey C

t 
T

am
pa 

F
L 

33617 

R
P

T
 

50133 
08/28/2013 

K
alil, Y

am
ilet 

02/1 9/1 975 
1668 S

w
 11T

h S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33135 

R
P

T
 

50134 
08/28/2013 

S
haw

 
H

eather M
ary 

07/06/1989 
W

algreens 
790W

 
G

ranada B
lvd 

O
rm

ond B
each 

F
L 

32174 

R
P

T
 

50135 
08/28/2013 

Y
ancey 

A
m

anda 
12/05/1991 

W
inn D

ixie 
326 l 

M
ulberry 

F
L 

33860 
R

enee 
R

P
T

 
50136 

08/28/2013 
P

ow
ell 

M
ache 

03/22/1980 
1390 S

 
Jefferson S

treet 
M

onticello 
F

L 
32344 

Latro n is 

R
P

T
 

50137 
08/28/2013 

R
itchie, D

anielle 
11/04/1990 

O
ther 

S
anford B

row
n Institute 

10030 E
 W

ilder A
ve. 

T
am

pa, 
F

L 
33610 

N
icole 

T
am

pa 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11:21:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edicci 

M
 O

Jj 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

e-tv 
R

eport for 2208 
: R

egistered 
7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

S
ort O

rder: 
O
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 L
i
e
c
u
s
e
 D
a
t
e
 

P
a
g
e
 45 of 47 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

5
0
1
3
8
 

0
8
/
2
8
/
2
0
1
3
 

S
a
m
b
l
e
,
 
C
a
r
i
n
a
 

0
5
/
1
 0/1 992 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

22508 F
erdon B

lvd 
C

restview
, F

L 
32536 

C
aitlin 

Inc. 

R
P

T
 

50139 
08/28/2013 

T
ories, A

shley 
09/24/1990 

W
algreens 

2101 S
adler R

d 
F

ernandina B
each, F

L 

R
P

T
 

50140 
08/28/2013 

Lew
is 

S
handrieka 

04/22/1 992 
204 M

altese C
ircle A

pt 
13 

F
ern P

ark 
F

L 
32730 

Lashay 
. 

R
P

T
 

50141 
08/28/2013 

R
ogers M

elissa E
rica 

05/06/1987 
W

algreens 
1800 S

an M
arco R

d 
M

arco Island 
F

L 
34145 

R
P

T
 

50142 
08/28/2013 

M
erlino A

nthony 
01/10/1989 

4701 S
F

lan-iingo R
oad 

C
ooper C

ity 
F

L 
33330 

John 

R
P

T
 

50143 
08/28/2013 

R
om

an, D
iam

ond 
11/17/1992 

C
oncorde C

areer Institute 
1371 T

hom
asville C

irlce 
Lakeland, F

L 33811 

M
arie 

R
P

T
 

50144 
08/28/2013 

S
uarez, H

um
berto 

10/27/1 975 
W

algreens 
8325 S

outh P
ark C

ircle 
O

rlando, F
L 

32819 

R
P

T
 

08/28/2013 
T

aylor 
P

atience 
04/01/1978 

W
algreens 

08/28/2013 
S

aunders, M
onica 

08/18/1984 
W

algreens 
S

tarr 
0
8
/
2
8
/
2
0
1
3
 

W
ilder, S

heena 

08/28/2013 
R
o
c
k
w
o
o
d
,
 
M
a
r
i
t
z
a
 

S
uite 201 

3609 T
am

 D
r 

8325 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

S
uite 2

0
1
 

1
2
/
3
1
/
1
9
8
0
 

W
algreens 

1617 D
aly S

treet 

02/28/1 9
7
0
 

W
a
l
g
r
e
e
n
s
 

8325 S
outhpark C

ircle 
S

uite 2
0
1
 

R
P
T
 

50149 
08/28/2013 

R
odriguez. Janet 

12/27/1 959 
W

algreens 
8325 S

outh P
ark C

ircle 
S

te 201 

R
P

T
 

50150 
08/28/2013 

S
im

ons, B
rittany M

ae 
12/21/1987 

W
algreens 

8325 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

S
te 201 

R
P

T
 

50151 
08/28/2013 

Ingram
, A

m
y P

orter 
03/12/1985 

. 
1700 

N
 
'
N
 80T

h B
lvd 

R
P

T
 

50152 
08/28/2013 

B
lake 

04/11/1993 
5991 P

ine R
idge R

d 

W
illiam

 
R

P
T

 
50153 

08/28/2013 
W

alker, R
onnie L 

03/29/1 971 
W

algreens 
8325 S

outh 
P

ark C
ircle 

S
uite 201 

R
P

T
 

50154 
08/28/2013 

M
ccloud, Lynda M

arie 
02/13/1965 

1921 W
aldernere S

t S
te 

201 

R
P

T
 

50155 
08/28/2013 

P
ereyra, Jennifer 

05/1 0/1 993 
5900W

 S
am

ple R
oad 

S
tephanie 

U
nit 201 

R
P

T
 

. 
50156 

08/28/2013 
'S

m
ith, V

ivian H
 

06/09/1 955 
W

algreens 
8325 S

outh P
ark C

ircle 
S

uite 201 

R
P

T
 

50157 
08/28/2013 

T
em

ple, T
ricia M

arie 
03/10/1979 

W
algreens 

, 
, 

12020 B
etty A

nn D
nve 

R
P

T
 

50158 
' 

08/28/2013 
R

ivera, Jeff A
nthony 

11/01/1988 
. W

algreens 
8325 S

outh 
P

ark C
ircle 

S
uite .201 

R
P

T
 

50159 
08/28/2013 

'T
hom

as, Latoya 
07/09/1976 

W
algreens 

8325 S
outh 

P
ark C

ircle 

Lynell 
S

uite 201 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

50145 

R
P

T
 

5
0
1
4
6
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
4
7
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
4
8
 

O
rlando. F

L 
32802 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

O
rlando, F

L
 
3
2
8
0
8
 

O
r
l
a
n
d
o
.
 F
L
 
3
2
8
1
9
 

O
r
l
a
n
d
o
,
 F
L
 
3
2
8
1
9
 

O
r
l
a
n
d
o
,
 F

L 
32819 

G
ainesville, F

L
 
3
2
6
0
6
 

N
a
p
l
e
s
.
 

F
L 34119 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

F
l
o
r
i
d
a
 D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 H
e
a
l
t
h
 

S
arasota. 

F
L 34239 

C
oral 

S
p
r
i
n
g
s
,
 F
L
 
3
3
0
6
7
 

O
r
l
a
n
d
o
,
 F

L 
32819 

O
rlando, F

L 
32832 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

pkgjpt_liC
.p_dX

l5l 5:09/12/2013 1121:41 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
j 

N
ew

 
for 2208 

: 
Pharm

acy T
echnician 

O
rdLr: 

—
 

7/1/2013-8/31/2013 
Page 46 of 47 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:22:37A
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

50160 
08/28/2013 

S
oto, S

andra 
04/30/1 961 

W
algreens 

8325 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

S
uite 2

0
1
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
6
1
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

R
o
d
r
i
g
u
e
z
,
 Y
o
v
a
n
n
a
 

0
6
/
2
9
/
1
9
7
9
 

W
a
l
g
r
e
e
n
s
 

8
3
2
5
 
S
o
u
t
h
 
P
a
r
k
 
C
i
r
c
l
e
 

O
r
l
a
n
d
o
,
 F
L
 
3
2
8
1
9
 

S
t
e
 201 

R
P

T
 

50162 
08/29/2013 

T
rask, Larry K

ent Jr 
09/16/1971 

W
algreens 

8325 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

S
uite 2

0
1
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
6
3
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

W
a
s
h
i
n
g
t
o
n
 
W
a
y
n
e
 

0
5
/
2
9
/
1
 9
7
3
 

W
a
l
g
r
e
e
n
s
 

8
3
2
5
 S
o
u
t
h
 
P
a
r
k
 C
i
r
c
l
e
 

O
r
l
a
n
d
o
 
F
L
 
3
2
8
1
9
 

T
h
o
m
a
s
 Ii 

S
uite 201 

R
P

T
 

50164 
08/29/2013 

W
illiam

s 
R

uth 
01/29/1952 

W
algreens 

8325 S
outh P

arkC
irS

uite 
O

rlando 
F

L 
32819 

201 
R
P
T
 

5
0
1
6
5
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

W
o
o
d
 
J
e
n
n
i
f
e
r
 

1
2
/
1
0
/
1
9
9
1
 

O
t
h
e
r
 

U
n
i
v
 O
f
 F
l
o
r
i
d
a
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 

1
1
1
6
 N
 
F
e
r
d
o
n
 
B
l
v
d
 

C
r
e
s
t
v
i
e
w
 
F
L
 
3
2
5
3
6
 

R
e
s
h
a
y
 

O
f F

lorida 
R

P
T

 
5
0
1
6
6
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

W
a
t
k
i
n
s
,
 W
i
l
l
i
a
m
 
L
e
o
 

0
5
/
1
5
/
1
9
8
6
 

C
v
s
 C
a
r
e
r
n
a
r
k
 

E
x
p
r
e
s
s
 T
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
 

1
6
0
4
0
 S
e
 1
8
T
h
 L
a
n
e
 

O
c
k
l
a
w
a
h
a
,
 F
L
 
3
2
1
7
9
 

S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
;
 

R
P

T
 

50167 
08/29/2013 

S
talker, M

ary-H
eather 11979 

O
ther 

S
andfoord B

row
n 

9703 F
ox H

ollow
 R

d. 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33647 

D
aw

n 
R

PT
 

5
0
1
6
8
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

Q
u
i
l
e
s
 
J
a
m
e
s
 
L
u
i
s
 

0
4
/
0
3
/
1
9
7
9
 

S
o
u
t
h
w
e
s
t
 
F
l
o
r
i
d
a
 C
o
l
l
e
g
e
 
3
7
0
 
S
e
 
M
i
z
n
e
r
 
B
l
v
d
 #
1
6
0
4
 
B
o
c
a
 
R
a
t
o
n
 
F
L
 
3
3
4
3
2
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
6
9
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

N
e
s
b
i
t
t
.
 T
r
a
c
y
 
L
 

0
6
/
2
4
/
1
9
6
8
 

O
t
h
e
r
 

U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 O
f
 F
l
o
r
i
d
a
 

6
1
3
 B
o
w
d
e
n
 
R
d
.
 

C
l
e
w
i
s
t
o
n
.
 F
L
 

33440 
C
o
l
l
e
g
e
 
O
f
 P
h
a
r
m
a
c
y
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
7
0
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

R
a
m
i
r
e
z
.
 S
t
e
v
e
n
 

1
1
/
1
8
/
1
9
8
9
 

C
v
s
 C
a
r
e
m
a
r
k
 

5
5
0
 W
e
s
t
 
B
u
r
l
e
i
g
h
 

T
a
v
a
r
e
s
,
 F
L
 
3
2
7
7
8
 

A
n
t
h
o
n
y
 

B
o
u
l
e
v
a
r
d
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
7
1
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

W
i
l
l
i
a
m
s
o
n
,
 A
m
y
 

0
3
/
0
2
/
1
9
9
1
 

O
c
o
n
e
e
 
F
a
l
l
 
L
i
n
e
 

1
6
8
 S
E
 
K
i
t
c
h
i
n
g
 
C
i
r
c
l
e
 

S
t
u
a
r
t
,
 
F
L
 
3
4
9
9
4
 

R
y
a
n
n
 

T
e
c
h
n
i
c
a
l
 C
o
l
l
e
g
e
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
7
2
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

L
o
p
e
z
,
 T
a
n
y
a
 
L
y
n
n
 

0
1
/
0
1
/
1
9
7
7
 

O
t
h
e
r
 

M
c
i
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 O
f
 

3
1
3
2
 G
r
a
n
d
i
f
l
o
r
a
 D
r
 

G
r
e
e
n
a
c
r
e
s
,
 F
L
 
3
3
4
6
7
 

T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
7
3
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

H
e
n
r
i
q
u
e
z
,
 H
e
v
i
a
n
 
E
 

0
1
/
0
2
/
1
 9
3
7
 

1
2
9
9
0
 S
w
 6
3
R
d
 
S
t
 A
p
t
 

M
i
a
m
i
,
 
F
L
 
3
3
1
8
3
 

6
0
5
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
7
4
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

D
i
a
z
 
F
e
r
n
a
n
d
e
z
,
 

1
1
/
0
9
/
1
9
8
1
 

1
1
4
3
 O
b
i
s
p
o
 A
v
e
 

M
i
a
m
i
,
 
F
L
 
3
3
1
3
4
 

E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
7
5
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

C
u
e
l
l
a
r
,
 
J
u
l
i
o
 C
e
s
a
r
 

0
9
/
3
0
/
1
9
7
4
 

1
0
2
2
9
 N
w
 9
T
h
 
S
t
 
C
i
r
.
 

M
i
a
m
i
,
 F
L
 

33172 
#
1
0
9
 

R
F
T
 

5
0
1
7
6
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

G
o
n
z
a
l
e
z
 L
o
p
e
z
,
 

0
9
/
1
1
/
1
9
7
3
 

l
3
4
O
S
w
l
l
2
T
h
A
v
e
 

M
i
a
m
i
,
 
F
L
 
3
3
1
8
9
 

M
a
d
a
y
s
 

#
3
0
4
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
7
7
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

G
o
n
z
a
l
e
z
 
M
a
r
t
h
a
L
 

0
3
/
3
1
/
1
9
6
4
 

4
4
6
O
N
W
7
9
T
h
A
v
e
#
1
D
 

M
i
a
m
i
 
F
L
 
3
3
1
6
6
 

R
F
T
 

5
0
1
7
8
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

F
e
r
r
a
r
o
 
M
e
l
a
n
i
e
 J
e
a
n
 
0
5
/
0
5
/
1
9
9
0
 

1
7
0
8
 N
 M
o
n
r
o
e
 
S
t
 

T
a
l
l
a
h
a
s
s
e
e
 
F
L
 
3
2
3
0
3
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
7
9
 

0
8
/
2
9
/
2
0
1
3
 

H
e
r
n
a
n
d
e
z
,
 A
n
n
a
 

0
4
/
1
1
/
1
9
9
1
 

1
3
5
 B
r
a
d
l
e
y
 
P
l
a
c
e
 

P
a
l
m
 B
e
a
c
h
,
 F
L
 
3
3
4
8
0
 

Y
e
i
n
y
 

R
P
T
 

5
0
1
8
0
 

0
8
/
3
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

C
o
l
s
o
n
,
 
J
e
r
m
a
i
n
e
 

0
6
/
2
0
/
1
 9
7
4
 

O
t
h
e
r
 

E
v
e
r
e
s
t
 U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 

1
1
2
8
 F
o
r
d
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 

T
a
l
l
a
h
a
s
s
e
e
,
 
F
L
 
3
2
3
0
3
 

D
o
n
g
e
u
r
 

F
l
o
r
i
d
a
 D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
1515:09/12/2013 1121:41 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
A

 
N

ew
 L

icense 
2208 

: 
Pharm

acy 'i'cchnkian 
Sort 

D
ate 

1 
71 1/2013-8/31/2013 

Paoe 47 of 47 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 
11:22:37A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

50181 
08/30/2013 

K
oppelm

ann, Jeffrey 
08/02/1962 

S
hands A

t U
niversity 

159 P
alm

 B
each 

R
oyal P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

L 
O

f F
lorida 

P
lantation B

lvd. 
33411 

R
P

T
 

50182 
08/30/2013 

K
elsey, 

K
ham

ila 
04/02/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

9T
h 3700 9T

h A
ve N

orth 
S

aint P
etersburg, 

F
L 

A
rauta 

R
P

T
 

50183 
08/30/2013 

Levy 
A

shley E
rin 

11/25/1990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2500 51S

t S
treet 

G
ifford 

F
L 

32968 
R

P
T

 
50184 

08/30/2013 
M

enendez 
S

ophia 
10/10/1991 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket 

15771 S
w

 152 S
treet 

M
iam

i 
F

L 
33187 

Inc 
R

P
T

 
50185 

08/30/2013 
B

echar H
eather L 

05/25/1989 
75 B

uxton Lane 
B

oynton B
each 

F
L 

33426 
R

P
T

 
50186 

08/30/2013 
P

erkins 0 B
rian 

03/10/1992 
W

algreens 
1001 

S
w

 2N
d A

ve 
B

oca R
aton 

F
L 

33432 
R

P
T

 
50187 

08/30/2013 
K

idd 
T

heresa K
atelin 

08/06/1990 
W

algreens 
1115 Joel B

lvd 
Lehigh A

cres 
F

L 
33936 

R
P

T
 

50188 
08/30/2013 

M
arte,V

ilm
a 

03/07/1958 
W

algreens 
. 

8325 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

S
uite 

201 
R

P
T

 
50189 

08/30/2013 
O

livo, A
nnaliesse 

06/08/1960 
W

algreens 
8325 S

outh P
ark C

ir S
uite 

O
rlando, 

F
L 

32819 
Josefina 

201 
R

P
T

 
50190 

08/30/2013 
M

orales, A
bigail 

02/12/1980 
W

algreens 
8325 S

outh P
ark C

ir S
uite 

O
rlando, 

F
L 

32819 
C

aridad 
201 

R
P

T
 

50191 
08/30/2013 

D
oxey. M

elanie Lynne 
10/30/1958 

32 B
ayberry B

ranch 
Longw

ood, F
L 

32707 
R

P
T

 
50192 

08/30/2013 
G

arcia 
W

illiam
 Jr 

04/28/1 971 
34911 

U
s H

w
y 19 

N
 

P
alm

 H
arbor 

F
L 

34684 

T
otal R

ecords: 
1,065 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5.09/12/2013 11:2141 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision ol 

M
edicoi O

vality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:24:05A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2203 

: C
onsultant Pharm

acist 
7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 
1 of2 

Janeene 
U

rieto, C
hristopher 

O
nosekhale 

Lenzi, Lisa Leigh 

C
olquitt, C

harlie 
W

aIler 

D
eforte, N

icole A
rlene 

M
celveen, D

erick Jr 

F
ortune, M

argrette 
H

ardw
ick 

M
ays, E

rica Lashea 

Low
e, A

ndra M
arie 

M
eringolo, John 

M
ichael 

H
ur, Y

ung W
 

F
erraro, R

obert P
eter 

Z
apico, A

nthony M
 

P
L A

ddress 

17803 S
W

 35T
h C

ourt 

2800 La C
oncha D

r 

1820 S
erpentine D

r S
o 

4124 C
ountry C

lub B
lvd 

11957 D
iam

ond S
prings 

D
r 

6383 M
allard T

race D
r 

7965 P
reservation R

oad 

2869 Lafayette T
race 

D
rive 

12116 D
iam

ond S
prings 

D
r 

5411 
B

ayou G
rande B

lvd 
N

E
 

6659 38T
h Ln E

ast 

uC
rc 

B
ox 1

1
3
9
 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33762 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33712 

C
ape C

o
r
a
l
,
 
F
L
 
3
3
9
0
4
 

J
a
c
k
s
o
n
v
i
l
l
e
,
 F

L 
32246 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32312 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32312 

S
aint C

loud, F
L 

34772 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32246 
- 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33703 

S
a
r
a
s
o
t
a
,
 

F
L 

34243 

W
inter G

arden, F
L 

34787 

C
rystal B

each, F
L 

34681 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5lS

:09/12/2013 11:23:09 
O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L Location 

P
U

 
7287 

07/03/2013 
G

lynn, P
aul F

rancis 
08/24/1 950 

2006 N
e 

15 A
ve 

f W
ilton M

anors, F
L 

33305 

P
U

 
7288 

P
U

 
7289 

07/03/2013 
W

alczyk, H
eather 

2861 
S

w
 73R

d W
ay A

pt 

12641 N
w

 18T
h M

anor 

D
avie, F

L 
33314 

P
em

broke P
ines, F

L 
33028 

07/11/2013 
K

ohli, S
anjay 

P
U

 
7290 

P
U

 
7291 

P
U

 
7292 

P
U

 
7293 

07/11/2013 
M

artinez, D
avid 

A
tha, R

aecl R
aafat 

j N
aguib 

14237 S
w

 94 C
ircle Lane 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33186 

5922 G
oleta C

ircle 
M

elbourne, F
L 

32940 

14870 T
allow

ood W
ay 

N
aples, F

L 
34116 

714 S
w

 12T
h A

ve 
F

ort Lauderdale, F
L 

33312 
7
1
3
 G

reenleaf Lane 
Lake W

ales, F
L 

33853 

07/15/2013 
D

eY
oung, P

aul 

M
ino, C

asey Q
uinn 

7294 
07/22/2013 

S
m

ith, N
orshaw

ndra 
M

arie 
7
2
9
5
 

0
7
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

E
pps, Q

uovadis 
P

u 

P
u 

P
u 

P
u 

P
u 

7
2
9
6
 

7
2
9
7
 

7
2
9
8
 

7
2
9
9
 

0
7
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

0
7
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

0
7
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

0
7
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

P
u 

7300 

P
u 

0
7
/
3
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

B
o
x
 5
7
8
6
8
 

7301 
0
7
/
3
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

0
7
/
3
0
/
2
0
1
3
 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32241 

M
iram

ar, F
L 

33029 

P
u 

7
3
0
2
 

7
3
0
3
 

7
3
0
4
 

7305 

7306 

7
3
0
7
 

07/31/2013 

08/06/2013 

0
8
/
0
6
/
2
0
1
3
 

0
8
/
0
8
/
2
0
1
3
 

0
8
/
1
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

- 

P
u 

7308 
08/15/2013 

V
inson, D

orothy 
E

lizabeth 

05/17/1 985 



F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11:23:09 O

N
D

 

D
ivision 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

11:24:05A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport 

D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
for 2203 

: C
onsultant Pharm

acist 
7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page2of2 
M

 
P

rocessed: 9/12/2013 

Sort 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
u 

7315 

P
U

 

L__ 
P

U
 

7309 
08/16/2013 

M
oore, C

laudia 
3540 W

hitehall D
r #102 

B
ox 15349 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

7310 
08/23/2013 

W
ilson, M

elissa 
R

oshelle 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32317 

J31 
P

U
 

7312 

P
U

 
7313 

P
U

 
7314 

08/28/2013 
X

avier, Jean Y
 

08/28/2013 
B

otnick, Jeffrey 
Law

rence 

08/28/2013 
G

regory, Jennifer 

14366 P
om

pano P
ass 

7415 B
riella D

rive 
, 1331 B

enevolent S
t 

P
anam

aC
lly,F

L 
32404 

S
pring H

ill, F
L 

34609 

B
oynton B

each, F
L 

33437 

M
aitland, F

L 
32751 

08/28/2013 
C

oronel, A
nnette 

M
aria 

P
U

 
7316 

T
otal R

ecords: 
30 

08/29/2013 
G

ierbolini-F
lores, 

M
ariel 

4400 N
w

 113T
h C

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33178 

168 Integra S
hores 

D
r 

D
aytona B

each, F
L 

O
2 

32117 



D
ivision of 

M
edical 

A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2204 

: N
uclear Pharm

acist 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

—
 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:26:00A
M

 
P

age 
1 of I 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

N
P

j 
439 

I 
08/21/2013 

D
ale 

T
otal R

ecords: 
I 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iicp_dxl5l 5:09/12/2013 11:25:07 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:27:00A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 

: Pharm
acy 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 
1 of7 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
13 11:26:07 

O
N

D
 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

26932 
07/01/2013 

26933 
07/01/2013 

26934 
07/02/2013 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 

A
g 'S

 D
iscount 

I 

P
harm

acy, Inc 
A

pex C
are P

harm
acy, 

Lic 

E
D

U
 Institution 

26935 

26936 

26937 

07/02/2013 

07/03/2013 

B
ond C

om
m

unity 
H

ealth C
enter, Inc 

B
ond C

om
m

unity 
H

ealth C
enter, Inc 

W
al-M

art Stores E
ast, 

L
p 

07/03/2013 
R

x E
xpress Pharm

acy 
O

f P
anam

a C
ity, Inc 

P
H

 
26938 

07/03/2013 
F

lagler'S
 D

rug S
tore 

26939 

26940 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

07/03/2013 

07/09/2013 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

10521 S
w

40 S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33165 

409 B
 S

outh 
P

arrott A
ve 

1 O
keechobee, F

L 
34974 

1704 Joe Louis S
t 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32304 

445 S
tate R

oad 13 
F

ruit C
ove, F

L 
32259 

540 B
 E

 6T
h S

treet 
P

anam
a C

ity, F
L 

32401 

8216 W
 F

lagler S
t 

M
iam

i, 
F

L 
33144 

1430 P
asadena A

venue 
S

outh P
asadena, 

F
L 

S
outh 

33707 

1150 E
 M

atthew
s A

ve S
te 

Jonesboro, A
R

 
72401 

103 

26941 
07/09/2013 

Lp S
t. P

etersburg 
P

asadena, LIc 

S
hinaberyS

 
C

om
pounding 

P
harm

acy, P
lc 

V
alley C

am
pus 

P
harm

acy Inc 
B

ond C
om

m
unity 

H
ealth C

enter 

S
erenity H

ouse 
D

etox, LIc 
S

aluscare, Inc 

S
aluscare,Inc 

S
im

ali H
ealthcare LIc 

26942 

26943 

26944 

26945 

P
 

26946 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

07/09/2013 

07/09/2013 

07/09/2013 

07/09/2013 

07/11/2013 

26947 
07/11/2013 

15211 V
anow

en S
t #301 

2634-C
 C

apital C
ircle N

e 
B

uildinri 
C

 

26948 

26949 

II 
.11111J11.IIIII..i 

.—
 

—
 

—
. 

07/11/2013 

07/11/2013 

V
an N

uys,C
A

 
91405 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32308 

S
outh Lake H

ospital 

T
allahassee M

em
orial 

H
ealthcare, Inc. 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

26950 

26951 

26952 

07111/2013 

07/15/2013 

- Little H
avana D

rug 
S

tore Inc 

S
 &

 Z
 K

han, C
orp 

M
arley D

rug, Inc. 

M
ohegan P

harm
acy 

1780N
w

52 A
ve 

Lauderhill,F
L 33313 

2450 P
rince S

treet 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33916 

3763 E
vans A

venue 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33901 

1920 D
on W

ickham
 D

rive 
C

lerm
ont, F

L 
34711 

S
uite #135 

L 

2040 O
akley S

eaver D
rive 

C
lerm

ont, F
L 

34711 

1260 M
etropolitan B

lvd 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32312 

1116 S
w

 1S
t S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33130 

36600 S
tate R

oad 54 
Z

ephyrhills, F
L 

33541 
W

est 

5008 P
eters C

reek P
kw

y 
W

inston-S
alem

, N
C

 
27127 

67 S
andy D

esert R
oad 

U
ncasville, C

I 
06382 



D
ivision of 

M
edical G

uali1y A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:27:00A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 

: Pharm
acy 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 2 of 7 

07/29/2013 
W

heeler'S
 C

ustom
 

C
om

pounding, 
Inc. 

07/29/2013 
S

urgcenter O
f O

range 
P

ark, Lic 

07/29/2013 
B

ird R
oad P

harm
acy 

&
 D

iscount Inc. 

1465 K
ingsley A

ve S
uite 

O
range P

ark, F
L 

32073 
1201 

7951 S
w

 40T
h S

t S
uite 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33155 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
1515:09/12/2013 11:26:07 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
H

 
26953 

26954 

07/18/2013 

07/19/2013 

S
tonybrook 

13921 
S

. P
laza 

259 
E

 M
ichigan S

t 

O
m

aha, N
E

 68137 

O
rlando, F

L 
32806 

P
H

 
A

ngel'S
 P

harm
acy I, 

Inc. 

P
H

 
26955 

07/19/2013 
C

leveland C
linic 

F
lorida P

harm
acy 

S
ervic 

7857-59 U
niversity D

r. 
S

uite 401-403 B
uilding 4 

P
arkland, F

L 33067 

P
H

 
26956 

07/19/2013 
G

eo C
are 

13619 S
outheast H

ighw
ay 

70 
A

rcadia, F
L 

34266 

P
H

 
26957 

07/19/2013 
Y

outh S
ervices 

International, Inc. 
3001 26T

h A
venue S

. 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 
33712 

P
H

 
26958 

07/19/2013 
A

lixa R
x LIc 

3100 N
orthw

oods P
lace 

N
w

 S
uite F

 
N

orcross, G
A

 30071 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

26959 

26960 

07/22/2013 

07/22/2013 

A
lliance A

llergy 
S

olutions 

B
ond P

harm
acy, 

Inc 

1318 20T
h S

treet S
outh 

S
uite 125 

B
irm

ingham
, A

L 
35205 

132 F
airm

ont S
treet S

uite 
B

 

C
linton, 

M
S

 39056 

26961 
I 

07/22/2013 
V

ail V
alley P

harm
acy 

LIc 
105 E

dw
ards V

illage 
B

lvd 
U

nit G
107 

E
dw

ards, C
O

 
81632 

P
H

 
26962 

07/22/2013 
F

lorida H
ealth C

are 
P

lan, Inc 
2500 W

est Lake M
ary 

B
lvd S

uite 109 
Lake M

ary, F
L 

32746 

P
H

 
26963 

07/26/2013 
R

ecovery R
esources 

E
nterprises, Inc 

461 
V

enus D
rive 

Juno B
each, F

L 
33408 

P
H

 
26964 

07/26/2013 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
B

oard O
f T

rustees 
4740 N

w
 39T

h P
lace S

uite 
G

ainesville, F
L 

32606 
B

 

4894 N
w

 7T
h S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 33126 

2600 C
ourtland S

treet 
S

arasota, F
L 32237 

P
H

 
26965 

07/26/2013 

07/26/2013 

P
harm

acy D
iscount 

P
H

 
26966 

S
arasota B

ay 
R

ehabilitation C
enter, 

LIc 

P
H

 
26967 

P
H

 
26969 

P
H

 
26970 

P
H

 
26968 

07/29/2013 
G

enesis P
harm

acy 
C

orp 

327 R
om

any R
d. 

8150 S
w

 8T
h S

treet #105 

Lexington, K
Y

 40502 

M
iam

i, F
L 33144 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 9/12/2013 

11:27:00A
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 

: Pharm
acy 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 3 of? 

Im
perial P

oint 
P

harm
acy C

enter, 
Inc. 

M
ed C

are C
hoice 

P
harm

acy, Inc. 

Y
outh S

ervices 
International 

P
ublix S

uper M
arkets, 

Inc 

T
opical S

pecialists, 
LIc 

S
outh B

row
ard 

H
ospital D

istrict 
P

ublix S
uper M

arkets, 
Inc 
W

atercrest 
A

cquisition 
I LIc 

Y
outh S

ervices 
International, Inc. 
M

edarbor LIc 

Lcrx, LIc 

S
train &

 S
train LIc 

M
athew

 M
anagem

ent 
lv 
A

ngel'S
 T

ouch 

W
algreen C

o 

M
ed icure Longw

ood 
Inc 
W

exford H
ealth 

S
ources 

W
exford H

ealth 
S

ources 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:09112/2013 

11:26:07 
O

N
D

 

P
H

 
26971 

07/29/2013 

P
H

 
26972 

07/29/2013 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
H

 
26975 

I 

PH
 

P
harm

aceuticals 

A
vrta D

rugs LIc 

LIc 

07/30/2013 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

6310 N
orth F

ederal H
w

y 

3570 C
onsum

er S
treet 

S
uite 8 

26976 

26977 

26978 

26979 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 
33308 

07/30/2013 

07/30/2013 

07/30/2013 

07/31/2013 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33404 

3350 N
w

 53 S
treet S

uite 
F

ort Lauderdale, F
L 

102-103 
i 33309 

411 C
olonial D

rive 

8301 S
outh P

alm
 D

r 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

B
aton R

ouge, LA
 

70806 

26980 

26981 

26982 

1140 S
w

 36T
h A

venue 

P
em

broke P
ines, 

F
L 

33025 

07/31/2013 

07/31/2013 

08/01/2013 

P
H

 

12276 S
an Jose B

lvd S
te 

212 

P
om

pano B
each, F

L 
33069 

26983 

P
H

 

08/02/2013 

3600 W
ashington S

treet 

2438 Laurel R
d E

ast 

26984 
08/02/2013 

P
H

 

P
H

 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32223 

H
ollyw

ood, 
F

L 33021 

N
orth V

enice, F
L 

34275 

26985 

26986 

08/02/2013 

08/02/2013 

16650W
. D

ixie H
w

y 

7500 R
icker R

oad 

P
H

 
26987 

P
H

 

08/05/2013 

N
orth M

iam
i B

each, F
L 

33160 

Jacksonville, 
F

L 
32244 

26988 

150 M
onum

ent R
d S

uite 
B

ala C
ynw

yd, P
A

 
19004 

408 

08/05/2013 

P
H

 

P
H

 

8240 E
 G

elding D
rive 

S
uite 115 

602 C
 S

outh M
organ 

26989 

26990 

08/05/2013 

08/05/2013 

2864 W
est B

ay D
r 

S
cottsdale, A

Z
 

85260 

G
ranbury,T

X
 

76048 
B

elleair B
luffs, F

L 
33770 

4338 S
w

 8 S
treet 

3510 B
iscayne B

lvd S
uite 

200 

C
oral G

ables, F
L 

33134 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33137 

420 W
 S

tate R
oad 434 

Longw
ood, F

L 32750 

1
6
0
1
 
S
o
u
t
h
w
e
s
t
 187T

h 
M
i
a
m
i
,
 F

L 
33185 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 

1
9
0
0
0
 S
w
 3
7
7
T
h
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 

F
l
o
r
i
d
a
 
C
i
t
y
,
 F
L
 
3
3
0
3
4
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:27:00A

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

A
nderson 

C
om

pounding 
P

harm
acy Inc 

M
etcalf'S

 D
iscount 

P
harm

acy 
T

ransition P
harm

acy 
LIc 

W
exford H

ealth 
S

ources 

A
qua P

harm
a Inc. 

N
avarro H

ealth 
S

ervices N
o. 

3, 
LIc 

W
exford H

ealth 
S

ources 

M
erissa C

orp 

P
ublix S

uper M
arkets, 

Inc 

J &
 

K
 C

are LIc 

W
exford H

ealth 
S

ources 
W

exford H
ealth 

S
ources 

P
recise 

P
harm

acy Inc 

N
orth S

unflow
er 

M
edical C

enter 
B

est H
ealth 

P
harm

acy Inc 

R
egional H

ealth 
P

artners, LIc 
P

ublix S
uper M

arkets, 
Inc. 

R
ush F

am
ily C

are 
Inc. 

4 N
esham

iny Interplex 
D

rive S
uite 

111 

3420 N
ortheast 168T

h 
S

treet 
2500 W

. F
lagler S

t. 

1800 N
w

 10T
h A

venue 
S

uite 101 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 

: Pharm
acy 

7/ 1/2013 - 8/3 1/2013 

P
H

 
26992 

08/05/2013 

P
H

 
26993 

P
H

 

P
H

 
26991 

08/05/2013 
W

exford H
ealth 

S
ources 

19000 S
outhw

est 377T
h 

S
treet S

uite 200 
F

lorida C
ity, 

F
L 

33034 

26994 

08/06/2013 

08/06/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 4 of 7 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
H

 

P
H

 

26995 
08/06/2013 

26996 
08/07/2013 

26997 
P

H
 

P
H

 

P
H

 

08/07/2013 

310 B
luff C

ity H
ighw

ay 

3929 
D

r 

26998 

26999 

08/07/2013 

08/08/2013 
- 

B
ristol, T

N
 

37620 

P
ortA

rthur,T
X

 
77642 

P
H

 

P
H

 

27000 

27001 

08/08/2013 

08/08/2013 

T
revose, P

A
 

19053 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

27002 

27003 

27004 

08/08/2013 

08/08/2013 

08/12/2013 

13617 S
outheast H

ighw
ay 

8101 W
S

unrise B
lvd 

756 N
 B

elcher R
oad 

JC
oachm

an P
laza 

J13910 N
w

 41S
t S

treet 

14000 N
orthw

est 41 S
t 

S
treet 

10810 W
ashington B

lvd 
S

uiteC
 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

08/14/2013 

08/14/2013 

08/14/2013 

27005 

27006 

27007 

27008 

27009 

O
keechobee, F

L 
34972 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33130 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33136 

A
rcadia, F

L 
34266 

W
altham

, M
A

 02452 
P

lantation, F
L 

33322-5401 
C

learw
ater, 

F
L 

33765 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33178 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33178 

C
ulver C

ity, C
A

 
90232 

R
uleville, M

S
 

38771 

08/1412013 

08/14/2013 

P
H

 
27010 

08/14/2013 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 

K
ash N

' K
arry F

ood 
S

tores, Inc 

840 
N

. O
ak A

ve 

243 N
w

 27T
h A

ve 

125 S
w

 7T
h S

treet 

1324 Lakeland H
ills B

lvd 
S

uite 203 

llll5S
w

93R
d C

ourt 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 
33311 

W
illiston, F

L 
32696 

Lakeland, F
L 33805 

O
cala, F

L 
34481 

R
oadU

nit#300 
2500 B

urnsed B
lvd 

T
he V

illages, F
L 

32163 

pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxI5l 5:09/12(2013 11:26:07 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

M
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2205 
: Pharm

acy 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

—
 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Processed: 

9/12/2013 
11:27:00A

M
 

P
age5of7 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
H

 
27011 

08/14/2013 
W

exford H
ealth 

33123 O
il W

ell R
oad 

P
unta G

orda, F
L 

33955 
S

ources 

P
H

 
27012 

08/14/2013 
R

sks P
harm

acy Llc 
4710 

H
abana A

ve 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33614 

P
H

 
27013 

08/15/2013 
E

thical F
actorR

x LIc 
330 M

ontage M
ountain 

M
oosic, P

A
 

18507 
R

oad S
uite A

-i 
1 

P
H

 
27014 

08/16/2013 
N

ational S
urgical 

'5365 W
A

tlantic A
ve S

uite 
D

elray B
each, F

L 
33484 

C
enters O

f A
m

erica 
501 

P
H

 
27015 

08/16/2013 
F

lorida H
ealth 

1647 S
un C

ity C
enter 

S
un C

ity C
enter, F

L 
S

ciences C
enter 

P
laza S

uite 104 
33573 

P
H

 
r 

27016 
08/16/2013 

F
lorida H

ealth 
10647 B

ig B
end R

oad 
R

iverview
, F

L 
33579 

S
ciences C

enter 
S

uite 212 

P
H

 
27017 

08/16/2013 
C

om
pounding 

27225 S
tate 

R
d 56 

W
esley C

hapel, F
L 

33544 
S

olution LIc 

P
H

 
27018 

08/16/2013 
Y

our P
harm

acy In 
1463 W

est F
lagler S

t 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 

33135 
M

iam
i Inc 

P
H

 
27019 

08/16/2013 
B

ehavioral H
ealth O

f 
1106 B

lossom
 Lane 

P
alm

 
B

each S
hores, F

L 
P

alm
 B

eaches 
33408 

P
H

 
27020 

08/16/2013 
G

4S
 Y

outh S
ervices, 

9508 E
ast C

olum
bus 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33619 

j 
- 

LIc 
D

rive 

P
H

 
27021 

08/16/2013 
G

4S
 Y

outh S
ervices, 

3930 W
est M

Ik B
lvd 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33614 
LIc 

P
H

 
27022 

08/16/2013 
B

ehavioral H
ealth O

f 
1 

7859 Lake W
orth R

oad 
Lake W

orth, 
F

L 
33467 

P
alm

 B
eaches 

. 

P
H

 
27023 

08/16/2013 
R

egency C
are O

f 
16690 S

 W
 C

hipola R
oad 

B
lountstow

n, 
F

L 
32424 

B
buntstow

n,Llc 
P

H
 

27024 
08/19/2013 

A
ids H

ealthcare 
1164 E

. O
akland P

ark 
O

akland P
ark, F

L 
33334 

00 

P
H

 
27025 

08/19/2013 
C

itrus H
ealth 

8375 S
outh P

alm
 D

rive 
P

em
broke P

ines, F
L 

N
etw

ork, Inc. 
33025 

P
H

 
27026 

08/19/2013 
T

rinity M
edical 

'9332 S
tate R

oad 54 S
uite 

N
ew

 P
ort R

ichey, F
L 

P
harm

acy, LIc 
205 

34655 

P
H

 
27027 

08/19/2013 
W

exford H
ealth 

6901 S
tate R

oad 62 
B

ow
ling G

reen, F
L 

33834 

P
H

 
27028 

08/19/2013 
1 A

m
ericure R

x - 
5736 C

lark R
oad 

S
arasota, 

F
L 

34233 
F

lorida LIc 

P
H

 
27029 

08/21/2013 
W

exford H
ealth 

1150 S
outhw

est 
Indiantow

n, 
F

L 
34956 

. 
A

tlapaftahR
oa 

- 
P

H
 

27030 
08/21/2013 

C
oram

 A
lternate S

ite 
4334 B

rockton D
rive S

e 
K

entw
ood, 

M
I 

49512 

S
ervices, Inc 

S
uite 

D
 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rptjic.p_dx1515:09/12/2013 11:26:07 O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 9/12/2013 
11:27:00A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 : Pharm

acy 
7/1/2013-8/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 6 of 7 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxI5l 5:09112/2013 11:26:07 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
H

 
27031 

08/21/2013 
O

peration P
ar Inc. 

1245 K
ass C

ircle 
S

pring H
ill, F

L 
34606 

P
H

 
27032 

08/21/2013 
O

ne T
o O

ne 
P

harm
acy Inc 

4705 S
w

 8 S
t #1 

C
oral G

ables, F
L 

33134 

P
H

 
27033 

P
H

 
27034 

P
H

 
27035 

08/22/2013 
S

phinx P
harm

acy 

08/22/2013 
A

lgunas Inc 

1201 D
airy A

shford S
te 

H
ouston, T

X
 

77079 

75247 

23299 V
entura B

lvd 
S

uite 
W

oodland H
ills, 

C
A

 
200 

91364 

4005 K
ilgore A

ve 
M

uncie, IN
 

47304 
P

H
 

27036 
08/22/2013 

W
algreen C

o. 

P
H

 
27037 

08/23/2013 
F

lorida H
ospital 

H
om

e Infusion, Lip 
11461 

N
 U

s H
w

y 301 
S

uite 105 &
 

106 
T

honotosassa, F
L 

33592 

P
H

 
27038 

08/23/2013 
S

uncoast C
om

m
unity 

H
ealth C

enters, Inc 
1729 Lakeland 

H
ills B

lvd 
Lakeland, F

L 
33805 

P
H

 
27039 

08/23/2013 
W

al-M
art S

tores E
ast, 

Lp 
21151 

S
 D

ixie H
w

y 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33189 

P
H

 
27040 

08/23/2013 
- 

R
eaw

akening 
3600 R

ed R
oad 5T

h F
loor 

M
iram

ar, F
L 

33025 

P
H

 
27041 

08/23/2013 
C

linical 
P

harm
acology 

S
ervices, Inc 

6285 E
. F

ow
ler A

ve 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33617 

P
H

 

P
H

 

27042 

27043 

08/23/2013 
N

orthern 
R

x LIc 

I 

2012 
E

 N
orthw

est H
w

y 
A

rlington H
eights, 

IL 
60004 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 
08/26/2013 

C
atholic H

ospice, Inc 
4725 N

 F
ederal H

w
y 5T

h 

P
H

 
I 

27044 

P
H

 
27045 

08/26/2013 
P

ublix S
uper M

arkets, 
Inc 

08/27/2013 
tW

al-M
art S

tores E
ast, 

Lp 

1180 R
oyal P

alm
 B

each 
B

lvd 

4520 S
outh S

em
oran B

lvd 

R
oyal P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33411 

O
rlando, 

F
L 

32822 

P
H

 
27046 

08/27/2013 
S

kyy S
pecialty 

P
harm

acy Inc 
6802 W

. H
illsborough A

ve 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33634 

P
H

 
27047 

08/28/2013 
Inverness A

pothecary 
T

rinity LIc 
24333 G

ordon T
erry P

kw
y 

I 

S
uite B

 

T
rinity, A

L 
35673 

P
H

 
27048 

08/29/2013 
M

 &
 M

 B
eatty LIc 

2112 B
elair R

d S
uite 

11 
F

allston, M
D

 
21047 

P
H

 
27049 

08/29/2013 
C

ustom
 M

ade 
P

harm
acy Inc 

13322 R
iverside D

r 
S

herm
an O

aks, C
A

 
91423 

P
H

 
27050 

08/29/2013 
C

alifornia D
rug 

C
om

pounding, 
LIc 

6878 B
eck A

ve 
N

orth H
ollyw

ood, C
A

 
91605 

P
H

 
27051 

08/29/2013 
R

 &
 0 P

harm
acy, LIc 

651 V
ia A

londra U
nit 708 

&
709 

C
am

arillo, C
A

 
93012 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

M
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2205 
: Pharm

acy 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

—
 

7/1/2013 - 8/31/2013 
Processed: 9/12/2013 

11:27:00A
M

 
P

age 7 of 7 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
H

 
27052 

08/30/2013 
A

ccredo H
ealth 

6272 Lee V
ista B

lvd. S
uite 

O
rlando, F

L 
32822 

L 
100 

T
otal R

ecords: 
121 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
1515:09/12/2013 11:26:07 

O
N

D
 



D
iorsion of 

M
edical Q

uolily 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

Pharm
acy R

atio M
odifiers R

eport 

P
rocessed: 

09/12/2013 11:31:30A
M

 

M
odifier E

ffective D
ate: 

07/01/2013 
- 

08/31/2013 

Page 
I of3 

2205 
305 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 IN

C
 

305 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 IN
C

 
P

H
 

27058 
20184 

09/09/2013 
08/15/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
11398 W

E
S

T
 F

LA
G

LE
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
U

IT
E

 109 
M

IA
M

I. F
L 33174 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
A

C
C

R
E

D
O

 H
E

A
LT

H
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
IN

C
. 

P
H

 
27052 

20115 
08/30/2013 

07111/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LO
S

E
D

 
6272 

LE
E

 V
IS

T
A

 B
LV

D
. S

U
IT

E
 100 O

R
LA

N
D

O
. 

F
L 32822 

O
range 

2205 
A

ID
S

 H
E

A
LT

H
C

A
R

E
 

F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 

A
H

F
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

P
H

 
27024 

20089 
08/19/2013 

08/14/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

45 M
E

LV
ILLE

 P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

 M
E

LV
ILLE

, 
N

Y
 

11747 
U

nknow
n 

2205 
A

ID
S

 H
E

A
LT

H
C

A
R

E
 

F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 

A
H

F
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

20183 
05/15/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
45 M

E
LV

ILLE
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D
 

M
E

LV
ILLE

, N
Y

 
11747 

U
nknow

n 

2205 
B

E
R

T
Y

A
N

N
 

C
O

R
P

. 
B

E
S

T
 D

IS
C

O
U

N
T

 &
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

20195 
08/21/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
510 W

E
S

T
 

29 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
H

IA
LE

A
H

, F
L 33012 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
B

E
R

T
h'A

N
N

 C
O

R
P

. 
B

E
S

T
 D

IS
C

O
U

N
T

 A
N

D
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

20207 
08/26/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
510 W

E
S

T
 29 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

H
IA

LE
A

H
, F

L 33012 
M

iam
i-D

ade 

2205 
B

IO
S

C
R

IP
 

IN
F

U
S

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, 

LLC
 

C
A

R
E

P
O

IN
T

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

 
20142 

07/22/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L 
IN

 P
R

O
C

 
3986 B

O
U

LE
V

A
R

D
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 D

R
IV

E
 S

U
IT

E
 

1 

JA
C

K
S

O
N

V
ILLE

, 
F

L 32207 
D

uval 

2205 
B

IO
S

C
R

IP
 

IN
F

U
S

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
. 

LLC
 

B
IO

S
C

R
IP

 IN
F

U
S

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

20143 
07/22/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
5912 B

R
E

C
K

E
N

R
ID

G
E

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
 S

U
IT

E
 E

 

T
A

M
P

A
, 

F
L 33610 

H
illsborough 

2205 
C

IR
C

LE
S

 O
F

 C
A

R
E

, 
IN

C
. 

P
H

 
13.853 

4236 
10/18/1995 

08/01/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

400 E
A

S
T

 S
H

E
R

ID
A

N
 R

O
A

D
 M

E
LB

O
U

R
N

E
. 

F
L 32901-3184 

(321) 984-4900 
B

revard 

2205 
C

LE
V

E
LA

N
D

 C
LIN

IC
 F

LO
R

ID
A

 
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

 
C

LE
V

E
LA

N
D

 C
LIN

IC
 F

LO
R

ID
A

 
P

H
 

26955 
20104 

07/19/2013 
07/01/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
2950 C

LE
V

E
LA

N
D

 C
LIN

IC
 B

LV
D

 
W

E
S

T
O

N
, 

F
L 33331 

B
row

ard 

2205 
C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 

S
O

LU
T

IO
N

 LLC
 

W
E

S
LE

Y
 C

H
A

P
E

L C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

P
H

 
27017 

20130 
08/16/2013 

07/16/2D
13 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
27113 B

R
U

S
H

 C
R

E
E

K
 W

A
Y

 W
E

S
LE

Y
 

C
H

A
P

E
L, F

L 33544 
P

asco 

2205 
C

O
R

A
L S

C
R

IP
T

 IN
C

 
20194 

08/21/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

7359 C
O

R
A

L W
A

Y
 

M
IA

M
I, 

F
L 33155 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
D

A
R

JE
N

 IN
C

 
P

H
 

27069 
20145 

09/12/2013 
07/26/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
5845 N

. M
ILIT

A
R

Y
 T

R
A

IL #405-408 P
A

LM
 

B
E

A
C

H
 

G
A

R
D

E
N

S
, F

L 33418 
P

alm
 B

each 

2205 
E

R
G

O
G

E
N

IC
 LA

B
S

, LLC
 

E
R

G
O

G
E

N
IC

 
LA

B
S

 
20125 

07/15/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

1001 Y
A

M
A

T
O

 R
O

A
D

 #406 B
O

C
A

 R
A

T
O

N
, F

L 

33431 

P
alm

 B
each 

2205 
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

 S
P

E
C

IA
LT

Y
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
. 

LLC
 

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
 S

P
E

C
IA

LT
Y

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

, LLC
 

20189 
08/16/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
4200 S

. H
E

N
D

E
R

S
O

N
 B

LV
D

 
T

A
M

P
A

, F
L 

33629 
H

illsborough 

2205 
F

LO
R

ID
A

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L H
O

M
E

 IN
F

U
S

IO
N

. 
LLP

 
F

LO
R

ID
A

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L H
O

M
E

 IN
F

U
S

IO
N

. 
T

A
M

P
A

 
D

I 

P
H

 
27037 

19891 
08/23/2013 

08/20/2013 
2P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

556 F
lorida C

entral P
arkw

ay S
uite 1044 

LO
N

G
W

O
O

D
, 

F
L 32750 

2205 
G

O
LD

E
N

R
O

D
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 LLC

 
20200 

08/23/2013 
2P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

1433 C
A

R
IN

G
 C

O
U

R
T

 M
A

IT
LA

N
D

, F
L 32751 

O
range 

2205 
G

O
O

D
 H

O
M

E
S

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 LLC
 

G
O

O
D

 H
O

M
E

S
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

20188 
08/15/2013 

2P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
9816 C

A
M

B
E

R
LE

Y
 C

IR
C

LE
 U

N
IT

 230 
O

R
LA

N
D

O
, F

L 32536 
O

range 

2205 
H

ILLC
R

E
S

T
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

IE
S

 
V

II, 
IN

C
 

H
ILLC

R
E

S
T

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
IE

S
 

V
II 

P
H

 
27066 

20146 
09/10/2013 

07/29/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

421 9T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 N
O

R
T

H
 N

A
P

LE
S

, F
L 34102 

C
ollier 

2205 
IM

P
E

R
IA

L P
O

IN
T

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
C

E
N

T
E

R
, IN

C
. 

P
H

 
26971 

20124 
07/29/2013 

07/15/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

6278 N
O

R
T

H
 F

E
D

E
R

A
L H

W
Y

 #139 F
O

R
T

 
LA

U
D

E
R

D
A

LE
, 

F
L 33308 

B
row

ard 

2206 
M

A
R

IA
 G

R
O

U
P

 
L 

L C
 

N
O

R
T

H
B

A
Y

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20112 

07/03/2013 
2P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

15835 B
E

R
E

A
 D

R
 

O
D

E
S

S
A

, F
L 33556 

H
illoborough 

2205 
M

A
R

T
IN

 M
E

M
O

R
IA

L M
E

D
IC

A
L C

E
N

T
E

R
 

IN
C

. 
T

R
A

D
IT

IO
N

 M
E

D
IC

A
L C

E
N

T
E

R
 

20205 
08/26/2013 

2P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
P

0 B
O

X
 9010 

S
T

U
A

R
T

, 
F

L 34994 
M

artin 

2205 
M

E
D

 C
A

R
E

 C
H

O
IC

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
, IN

C
. 

M
E

D
 C

A
R

E
 C

H
O

IC
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

, IN
C

. 
P

H
 

26972 
20134 

07/29/2013 
07/19/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
3570 C

O
N

S
U

M
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

U
IT

E
 8 W

E
S

T
 

P
A

LM
 

B
E

A
C

H
, F

L 33404 
P

alm
 B

each 

P
rof 

D
rganization N

am
e 

O
B

A
 N

am
e 

M
odifier 

R
ank 

License B
 

F
ile 

B
 

Issue D
te 

60sf O
te 

M
od C

de 
Lic 

S
tatus 

M
ailing A

ddress 
P

hone 
C

ounty 

F
lorida 

D
epartm

ent of H
ealth 

—
 F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 
—

 
pkg,,rpt_Iic.p_dx1549: 09/12/2013 11:3035 O

N
D

 



of 
M

edical Q
ualify A

ssurance 
C

O
M

PA
S D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

Pharm
acy R

atio M
odifiers R

eport 

Processed: 
09/12/2013 11:31:30A

M
 

M
odifier E

ffective D
ate: 

07/01/2013 
- 

08/31/2013 

M
odifier 

R
ank 

License 
8 

F
ile 8 

Issue O
te 

E
ffcl D

Ie 

P
age 2 aI3 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
—

 F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L /S

F
 O

N
LY

 —
 

pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxIS
4E

, 09/12/2013 11:30:35 O
N

D
 

P
rof 

O
rganization N

am
e 

D
B

A
 N

am
e 

M
od C

de 
Lie S

tatus 
M

ailing A
ddress 

P
hone 

C
ounty 

2205 
M

E
D

S
 D

IR
E

C
T

 
R

X
 O

F
 F

L, LLC
 

20227 
08/30/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
718 S

 M
ILIT

A
R

Y
 T

R
A

IL 
D

E
E

R
F

IE
LO

 B
E

A
C

H
. 

F
L 33442 

B
row

ard 

2205 
M

Y
 F

A
V

O
R

IT
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 LLC
. 

M
Y

 F
A

V
O

R
IT

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 LLC

. 
P

H
 

27059 
20196 

09/09/2013 
08/23/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
5368 N

O
R

T
H

 U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 
D

R
IV

E
 

LA
U

D
E

R
H

ILL, F
L 33351 

B
row

ard 

2205 
M

Y
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 O

F
 B

IG
 B

E
N

D
, LLC

. 
M

Y
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 O

F
 B

IG
 B

E
N

D
 

P
H

 
27065 

20181 
09/10/2013 

08/15/2013 
2P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

5002 T
A

R
I S

T
R

E
A

M
 W

A
Y

 
B

R
A

N
D

O
N

, F
L 

33511 

H
illsborough 

2205 
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 LLC

 
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

LLC
 

P
H

 
27082 

19985 
09/10/2013 

08126/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

19533 N
W

57T
H

 A
V

E
 

M
IA

M
I, F

L 33055 
M

iam
i-D

ade 

2205 
N

A
V

A
R

R
O

 H
E

A
LT

H
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 N
O

.3, 
LLC

 
N

A
V

A
R

R
O

 H
E

A
LT

H
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 LO

C
 

5 
P

H
 

26997 
20119 

08/07/2013 
07/1 1/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
9400 N

W
 104 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

M
E

D
LE

Y
, F

L 33178 
M

iam
i-D

ade 

2205 
N

E
W

 E
R

A
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

E
U

T
IC

A
LS

 LLC
 

N
E

W
 E

R
A

 S
P

E
C

IA
LT

Y
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

P
H

 
26973 

20135 
07/29/2013 

07/08/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

3360 N
W

 53 S
treet S

uite 102-103 F
O

R
T

 
LA

U
D

E
R

D
A

LE
, F

L 33309 
B

row
ard 

2205 
N

E
W

 LIF
E

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

IN
C

 
N

E
W

 LIF
E

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 IN

C
 

20180 
08/15/2013 

2P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
3032 N

W
 7T

H
 A

V
E

 
M

IA
M

I, F
L 33127 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
O

N
E

 T
O

 O
N

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 IN

C
 

O
N

E
 T

O
 O

N
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
P

H
 

27032 
20152 

08/21/2013 
07/30/2013 

2P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
4705 S

W
8 S

T
 ff1 C

O
R

A
L G

A
B

LE
S

, F
L 33134 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
O

P
T

IM
U

M
 C

A
R

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

O
P

T
IM

U
M

 C
A

R
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20208 

08/26/2013 
2P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

15 W
A

R
R

E
N

 P
L P

A
LM

 C
O

A
S

T
, F

L 32164 
F

lagler 

2205 
P

H
A

R
M

A
K

O
N

 LLC
 

D
U

V
A

L P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
P

H
 

24721 
17473 

06/28/2010 
08/13/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
2386 D

U
N

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 S

U
IT

E
 117 

JA
C

K
S

O
N

V
ILLE

, F
L 32218 

(904) 696-8882 
D

uval 

2205 
P

R
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
S

 
P

LU
S

 IN
C

 
P

R
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
S

 P
LU

S
 

P
H

 
15976 

6395 
03/27/1998 

07/1212013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

3361 F
A

IR
LA

N
E

 F
A

R
M

S
 R

O
A

D
 

W
E

LLIN
G

T
O

N
, F

L 33414 
(561) 795-1636 

P
alm

 B
each 

2205 
P

R
IM

E
 R

X
 

LLC
 

P
R

IM
E

 R
X

 
1-I 

27056 
20133 

09/09/2013 
07/19/2013 

2P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
10420 N

. M
C

K
IN

LE
Y

 D
R

. 
T

A
M

P
A

, F
L 33812 

H
iltoborough 

2205 
P

LJB
LIX

 S
U

P
E

R
 M

A
R

K
E

T
S

, 
IN

C
 

P
U

B
LIX

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 #0362 
P

H
 

27044 
20131 

08/2612013 
07/16/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
P

0 B
O

X
 32018 A

U
N

: B
A

R
/T

A
X

 LA
K

E
LA

N
D

. 
F

L 33802 
P

olk 

2205 
P

U
B

LIX
 S

U
P

E
R

 
M

A
R

K
E

T
S

, 
IN

C
 

P
U

B
LIX

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
#1450 

20212 
09/27/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L 

IN
 P

R
O

C
 

P
0 B

O
X

 32018 A
U

N
: E

A
R

/T
A

X
 LA

K
E

LA
N

D
, 

F
L 33802 

P
olk 

2205 
P

U
B

LIX
 S

U
P

E
R

 
M

A
R

K
E

T
S

, 
IN

C
. 

P
U

E
LIX

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
#3211 

P
H

 
27008 

20122 
08/14/2013 

07/15/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

P
0 B

O
X

 32018 A
T

T
N

: B
A

R
/T

A
X

 LA
K

E
LA

N
D

, 
F

L 33802 
P

olk 

2205 
P

U
B

LIX
 S

U
P

E
R

 
M

A
R

K
E

T
S

. 
IN

C
. 

P
U

B
LIX

 S
P

E
C

IA
LT

Y
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 #3212 

20177 
08/09/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
P

0 B
O

X
 32018 

LA
K

E
LA

N
O

, F
L 33802 

P
olk 

2205 
R

U
R

A
L H

E
A

LT
H

 C
A

R
E

. IN
C

. 
A

Z
A

LE
A

 H
E

A
LT

H
 

20147 
07/29/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
1305 

N
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 A

V
E

 S
U

IT
E

S
 120-123 

G
R

E
E

N
 C

O
V

E
 S

P
R

IN
G

S
, F

L 32043 
C

lay 

2205 
R

U
S

H
 F

A
M

ILY
 C

A
R

E
 

IN
C

. 
R

IT
E

 C
A

R
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
P

H
 

27009 
20126 

08/14/2013 
07/16/2013 

2P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
5070 S

W
B

3R
D

 
LO

O
P

 
O

C
A

LA
, F

L 34474 
M

arion 

2205 
S

 
&

 Z
 <

H
A

N
, C

O
R

P
 

Z
E

P
H

Y
R

H
ILLS

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
P

H
 

26950 
20129 

07/11/2013 
07/03/2013 

3P
T

h 
C

LE
A

R
 

10212 G
arden A

lcove D
rive 

T
A

M
P

A
, 

F
L 33647 

H
illsborough 

2205 
S

K
Y

Y
 S

P
E

C
IA

LT
Y

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 IN
C

 
B

R
E

N
T

 S
P

E
C

IA
LT

Y
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

P
H

 
27046 

20127 
08/27/2013 

07/16/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

6802W
. H

ILLS
B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 A
V

E
 

T
A

M
P

A
, 

F
L 

33634 
H

illsborough 

2205 
S

O
U

T
H

 B
R

O
W

A
R

D
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L 

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 
M

E
M

O
R

IA
L 

H
O

M
E

 IN
F

U
S

IO
N

 
P

H
 

26978 
20111 

07/30/2013 
07/08/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
3600 W

ashington S
treet 

H
O

LLY
W

O
O

D
, 

F
L 

33021 
B

row
ard 

2205 
S

O
U

T
H

E
A

S
T

C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

LLC
 

S
O

U
T

H
E

A
S

T
C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20231 

08/30/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

LIN
P

R
O

C
 

39O
6C

R
A

G
M

O
N

T
D

R
 

T
A

M
P

A
, F

L33619 
H

illsborough 

2205 
S

T
 P

E
T

E
 C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

LLC
 

S
T

 P
E

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20116 

07/11/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 

P
R

O
C

 
3434 13T

H
 A

V
E

 N
 

S
A

IN
T

 P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

, F
L 

33713 

P
inellaa 



D
iulsion of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
Pharm

acy R
atio M

odifiers R
eport 

P
rocessed 

09/12/2013 
11:31:30A

M
 

M
odifier 

D
ate: 

07/01/2013 
- 

M
odifier 

R
ank 

License # 
F

ile 8 
Issue D

Ie 
E

ffct D
te 

P
age 3 of 3 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
--F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 
pkg_rpl_Iic.p_dx1549: 09/12/2013 11:30:35 O

N
D

 

P
rof 

O
rganization N

am
e 

D
B

A
 N

am
e 

T
otal: 

54 

M
od C

de 
Lie 

S
tatus 

M
ailing A

ddress 
P

hone 
C

ounty 

2205 
S

T
R

E
A

M
LIN

E
 LLC

 
S

T
R

E
A

M
LIN

E
 C

O
M

P
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20187 

05116/2013 
2P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

14865 O
LD

 S
T

. A
U

G
U

S
T

IN
E

 R
D

 U
N

IT
 # 108 

JA
C

K
S

O
N

V
ILLE

, 
F

L 32258 
D

uval 

2205 
T

A
R

G
E

T
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 S
T

O
R

E
 T

-2843 
20201 

08/23/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

P
G

 B
O

X
 9471 T

P
N

 0910 M
IN

N
E

A
P

O
LIS

, M
N

 
55403 

U
nknow

n 

2205 
T

E
N

 B
R

O
E

C
I<

 T
A

M
P

A
, IN

C
 

N
O

R
T

H
 T

A
M

P
A

 
B

E
H

A
V

IO
R

A
L H

E
A

LT
H

 
20223 

08/29/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L 
IN

 P
R

O
C

 
29910 S

R
 56 

W
E

S
LE

Y
 C

H
A

P
E

L, F
L 33543 

P
asco 

2205 
W

A
L-M

A
R

T
 S

T
O

R
E

S
 E

A
S

T
, LP

 
W

A
L-M

A
R

T
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 #10-5912 

P
H

 
27038 

20108 
08/23/2013 

07/01/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

702 S
W

 8T
H

 S
T

 
B

E
N

T
O

N
V

ILLE
, A

R
 72716 

U
nknow

n 

2205 
W

A
LG

R
E

E
N

 C
O

 
W

A
LG

R
E

E
N

S
 #15617 

P
t-I 

26987 
19958 

08/05/2013 
07/22/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
P

0 B
O

X
 901 

D
E

E
R

F
IE

LD
, IL 60015 

U
nknow

n 

2205 
W

E
S

T
LA

N
O

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 IN
C

 
W

E
S

T
LA

N
D

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 IN
C

 
P

H
 

27064 
20105 

09/10/2013 
07/01/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
12963W

, O
K

E
E

C
H

O
B

E
E

 R
D

 1/2 H
IA

LE
A

H
, F

L 
33018 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
V

4N
N

 D
IX

IE
 S

T
O

R
E

S
, IN

C
 

V
V

1N
N

-O
IX

IE
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 #177 

P
H

 
12541 

3373 
09/09/1993 

07125/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

P
O

S
T

 O
F

F
IC

E
 

B
O

X
 2209 

JA
C

K
S

O
N

V
ILLE

, 

F
L 32203 

D
uval 

2205 
Y

O
U

R
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

IN
 M

IA
M

I IN
C

 
Y

O
U

R
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

IN
 M

IA
M

I 
P

H
 

27018 
20140 

08/16/2013 
08/06/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
1463 W

E
S

T
 F

LA
G

LE
R

 
S

T
 

M
IA

M
I, 

F
L 33135 

M
iam

i-D
ade 



D
iv

is
io

n 
of

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lif

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
: 

9/
12

/2
01

3 
11

:3
0:

27
A

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S 
D

at
aM

ar
t 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Sy

st
em

 
N

ew
 L

ic
en

se
 R

ep
or

t 
fo

r 2
20

9 
: 
Ph

ar
m

ac
y 

T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

T
ra

in
in

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

7/
1/

20
13

-8
/3

1/
20

13
 

So
rt

 O
rd

er
: 

O
ri

gi
na

l 
L

ic
en

se
 D

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
 
of

 I 

T
ot

al
 R

ec
or

ds
: 

16
 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
pk

g_
rp

t_
lic

.p
_d

xl
5l

 5
:0

9/
12

/2
01

3 
11

:2
9:

33
 

O
N

D
 

R
an

k 
Li

c 
N

br
 

Is
su

e 
D

at
e 

Li
ce

ns
ee

 N
am

e 
B

irt
h 

D
at

e 
E

D
U

 P
ro

vi
de

r 
E

D
U

 I
ns

tit
ut

io
n 

P
L 

A
dd

re
ss

 
P

L 
Lo

ca
tio

n 

R
T

T
P

 
39

6 
07

/0
2/

20
13

 
S

up
er

io
r 

P
ha

rm
ac

y 
O

f T
em

pl
e 

T
er

ra
ce

 
56

71
 

E
 F

ow
le

r 
A

ve
 

I 

T
am

pa
, 

F
L 

33
61

7 

30
60

6 
U

.s
. 

H
w

y 
19

 N
 

P
al

m
 H

ar
bo

r,
 

F
L 

34
68

4 
R

T
T

P
 

39
7 

07
/2

6/
20

13
 

S
t 

M
in

a 
&

 P
op

e 
K

yr
ill

os
 

R
T

T
P

 
39

8 
07

/2
9/

20
13

 
P

ha
rm

te
c,

 I
nc

 
39

00
 C

ol
on

ia
l 

B
ou

le
va

rd
 

F
or

t 
M

ye
rs

, 
F

L 
33

96
6 

S
ui

te
 2

 

R
T

T
P

 
39

9 
07

/2
9/

20
13

 
M

et
ro

 R
x 

48
09

 E
 C

ol
on

ia
l 

D
r 

O
rla

nd
o,

 F
L 

32
80

3 

R
T

T
P

 
40

0 
08

/0
1/

20
13

 
T

ru
st

 P
ha

rm
ac

y,
 L

Ic
 

36
51

5 
U

s 
H

w
y 

19
 N

 
] 

P
al

m
 H

ar
bo

r,
 F

L 
34

68
4 

R
T

T
P

 
40

1 
08

/0
8/

20
13

 
Le

on
 M

ed
ic

al
 C

en
te

rs
 

10
1 

S
w

 2
7 

A
ve

 
M

ia
m

i, 
F

L 
33

13
5 

1 

R
T

T
P

 

R
T

T
P

 

40
2 

08
/0

8/
20

13
 

J 
- 

40
3 

08
/0

8/
20

13
 

F
or

d 
D

ru
g,

 I
nc

. 
D

ba
 

K
in

gs
 P

ha
rm

ac
y 

R
itt

er
'S

 T
ow

ne
 

74
10

 W
. 

B
oy

nt
on

 B
ea

ch
 

12
0 

E
 
N

ew
 Y

or
k 

A
ve

 

B
oy

nt
on

 B
ea

ch
, 

F
L 

D
el

an
d,

 F
L 

32
72

4 
P

ha
rm

ac
y 

29
19

 W
 S

w
an

n 
A

ve
 S

ui
te

 
T

am
pa

, 
F

L 
33

60
9 

R
T

T
P

 
40

4 
08

/0
8/

20
13

 
T

am
pa

 F
am

ily
 

I 
P

ha
rm

ac
y 

1 

10
1 

65
O

5H
w

y2
9N

or
th

 
32

57
7 

45
01

 C
ap

pe
r 

R
oa

d 
Ja

ck
so

nv
ill

e,
 F

L 
32

21
8 

1 

12
10

 S
w

 3
3R

d 
A

ve
 

O
ca

la
, 

F
L 

34
47

4 

08
/0

8/
20

13
 

S
co

tt'
S

P
ha

rr
na

cy
,U

c 

R
T

T
P

 

R
T

T
P

 

40
7 

40
8 

08
/1

4/
20

13
 

08
/1

9/
20

13
 

F
lo

rid
a 

S
ta

te
 C

ol
le

ge
 

A
tJ

ac
ks

on
vU

le
 

W
el

ls
 P

ha
rm

ac
y 

N
et

w
or

k 
R

T
T

P
 

40
9 

08
/1

9/
20

13
 

R
.B

. 
W

at
so

n'
S

 
16

 W
es

t 
W

al
l 

S
tr

ee
t 

F
ro

st
pr

oo
f, 

F
L 

33
84

3 

08
/2

9/
20

13
 

S
uw

an
ne

e-
H

am
ilt

on
te

 
ch

ni
ca

l 
C

en
te

r 
I 

- 
41

5 
S

w
 P

in
ew

oo
d 

D
riv

e 
Li

ve
 O

ak
, 

F
L 

32
06

4 
R

T
T

P
 

41
0 

R
T

T
P

 
41

1 
08

/3
0/

20
13

 
I 
G

en
oa

 H
ea

lth
ca

re
 

37
9 

6T
h 

A
ve

nu
e 

W
es

t 
B

ra
de

nt
on

, 
F

L 
34

20
5 

LI
c.

 
I 



Provider Name Provider # 

DRUG STORE NEWS 50-3802 

FLORIDA A&M UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF PHARMACY AND 

PHARMACEUTICAL SCIENCES 50-3072 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 50-2419 

JACKSON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 50-9806 

GANNETT EDUCATION 50-1489 

INTERAMERICAN PHARMACISTS ASSOCIATION 50-2601 

FLORIDA PHARMACY ASSOCIATION 50-754 

FREECE.COM 50-3515 

AKH INC. ADVANCING KNOWLEDGE IN HEALTHCARE 50-2560 

GANNETT EDUCATION 50-1489 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 50-2419 

PALMETTO GENERAL HOSPITAL 50-1545 

PRIME EDUCATION, INC. (PRIME) 50-1649 

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CONSULTANT PHARMACISTS 50-3997 

FLORIDA HOSPITAL HOME INFUSION 50-15680 

RXSCHOOL 50-12503 

PALM BEACH ATLANTIC GREGORY SCHOOL OF PHARMACY 50-11405 

FLORIDA SOCIETY OF HEALTH SYSTEM PHARMACISTS 50-3036 

BREVARD COUNTY PHARMACY ASSOCIATION 50-254 

PHARMACIST'S LETTER THERAPEUTIC RESEARCH CENTER 50-2973 

FLORIDA PHARMACY ASSOCIATION 50-754 

THE SOUTH FLORIDA SOCIETY OF NUCLEAR MEDICINE TECHNOLOGISTS 50-7822 

JACKSON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 50-9806 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 50-2419 

PALM BEACH ATLANTIC GREGORY SCHOOL OF PHARMACY 50-11405 

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CONSULTANT PHARMACISTS 50-3997 

NOVA SOUTHEASTERN UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 50-2759 

FLORIDA PHARMACY ASSOCIATION 50-754 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 50-2419 



Course Name Course # Status 

TREATMENT UPDATE FOR THE CARE OF PATIENTS INFECTED WITH HUMAN 

IMMUNODEFICIENCY VIRUS 20-399525 APPROVED 

PREVENTING MEDICATION ERRORS RELATED TO ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS 20-397710 APPROVED 

MEDICATION ERRORS: TO ERR IS HUMAN 20-398501 APPROVED 

IF IT AINT BROKE, DONT FIX IT: WHY THIS APPROACH TO THE MEDICATION- 

USE PROCESS IS NOT SAFE FOR PATIENTS 20-399734 APPROVED 

VACCINATION FOR PNEUMOCOCCUS, SHINGLES AND INFLUENZA 20-401866 APPROVED 

REDUCING AND PREVENTING MEDICATION ERRORS/HIV UPDATE-2013 20-404236 APPROVED 

REDUCING MEDICATION ERRORS THROUGH IMPLEMENTING A 

CONTINUOUS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 20-406133 APPROVED 

MEDICATION ERROR PREVENTION: A GUIDE FOR PHARMACISTS 20-400390 APPROVED 

HIV/AIDS 2 HOUR UPDATE FOR KENTUCKY HEALTH PROFESSIONALS 20-306388 APPROVED 

PREVENTING MEDICATION ERRORS FOR PHARMACISTS 20-401865 APPROVED 

MEDICATION ERRORS: TO ERR IS HUMAN 20-398499 APPROVED 

TIME IS BRAIN: GUIDELINES FOR THE EARLY MANAGEMENT OF PATIENT 

WITH ACUTE ISCHEMIC STROKE 20-399610 APPROVED 

CUTTING RISKS: MEDICATION AND MEDICAL ERRORS PREVENTION TO 

ENSURE PATIENT SAFETY 20-400821 APPROVED 

SENIOR CARE CENTRAL FLORIDA 2013 20-404295 APPROVED 

OSHA & BIOHAZARDOUS WASTE ANNUAL REVIEW 20-402522 APPROVED 

FLORIDA MEDICATION ERROR REDUCTION 20-393736 APPROVED 

PRESCRIPTION FOR A MEDICAL ERROR PREVENTION 20-399756 APPROVED 

6TH ANNUAL CENTRAL FLORIDA SOCIETY FALL SEMINAR 20-402942 APPROVED 

MEDICAL AND MEDICATION ERRORS 20-399592 APPROVED 

MEDICATION SAFETY: STRATEGIES FOR PREVENTING MEDICATION ERRORS 20-401847 APPROVED 

REGULATORY AND LAW CONFERENCE 20-406120 APPROVED 

20TH ANNUAL MEETING OF THE SOUTH FLORIDA SOCIETY OF NUCLEAR 

MEDICINE TECHNOLOGISTS 20-407314 APPROVED 

IF IT AINT BROKE, DONT FIX IT: WHY THIS APPROACH TO THE MEDICATION- 

USE PROCESS IS NOT SAFE FOR PATIENTS 20-399735 APPROVED 

REDUCING MEDICATION ERRORS IN YOUR PRACTICE 20-399679 APPROVED 

CLINICAL UPDATES IN HIV THERAPY AND MANAGEMENT 20-400791 APPROVED 

SENIOR CARE SOUTH FLORIDA 2013 20-404298 APPROVED 

PHYSICAL ASSESSMENT INSTITUTE PATIENT CARE MANAGEMENT 20-400576 APPROVED 

HIV/AIDS UPDATE 20-406137 APPROVED 

APOLOGY AND MEDICAL/MEDICATION ERRORS 20-398698 APPROVED 



Approved Date 

8/2/2013 

7/12/2013 
7/12/2013 

8/6/2013 
8/9/2013 

8/23/2013 

8/30/2013 
8/6/2013 

7/12/2013 
7/19/2013 
7/12/2013 

8/23/2013 

7/19/2013 
8/30/2013 

8/6/2013 
8/2/2013 

7/19/2013 
8/23/2013 
8/23/2013 

8/6/2013 
8/30/2013 

8/30/2013 

8/6/2013 
6/30/2013 
7/19/2013 
8/30/2013 
6/30/2013 
8/30/2013 
7/12/2013 



Provider Name Provider # 

DRUG STORE NEWS 50-3802 

FLORIDA A&M UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF PHARMACY AND 

PHARMACEUTICAL SCIENCES 50-3072 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 50-2419 

JACKSON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 50-9806 

GANNETT EDUCATION 50-1489 

INTERAMERICAN PHARMACISTS ASSOCIATION 50-2601 

FLORIDA PHARMACY ASSOCIATION 50-754 

FREECE.COM 50-3515 

AKH INC. ADVANCING KNOWLEDGE IN HEALTHCARE 50-2560 

GANNETT EDUCATION 50-1489 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 50-2419 

PALMETTO GENERAL HOSPITAL 50-1545 

PRIME EDUCATION, INC. (PRIME) 50-1649 

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CONSULTANT PHARMACISTS 50-3997 

FLORIDA HOSPITAL HOME INFUSION 50-15680 

RXSCHOOL 50-12503 

PALM BEACH ATLANTIC GREGORY SCHOOL OF PHARMACY 50-11405 

FLORIDA SOCIETY OF HEALTH SYSTEM PHARMACISTS 50-3036 

BREVARD COUNTY PHARMACY ASSOCIATION 50-254 

PHARMACIST'S LETTER THERAPEUTIC RESEARCH CENTER 50-2973 

FLORIDA PHARMACY ASSOCIATION 50-754 

THE SOUTH FLORIDA SOCIETY OF NUCLEAR MEDICINE TECHNOLOGISTS 50-7822 

JACKSON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 50-9806 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 50-2419 

PALM BEACH ATLANTIC GREGORY SCHOOL OF PHARMACY 50-11405 

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CONSULTANT PHARMACISTS 50-3997 

NOVA SOUTHEASTERN UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 50-2759 

FLORIDA PHARMACY ASSOCIATION 50-754 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 50-2419 



Course Name Course # Status 

TREATMENT UPDATE FOR THE CARE OF PATIENTS INFECTED WITH HUMAN 

IMMUNODEFICIENCY VIRUS 20-399525 APPROVED 

PREVENTING MEDICATION ERRORS RELATED TO ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS 20-397710 APPROVED 

MEDICATION ERRORS: TO ERR IS HUMAN 20-398501 APPROVED 

IF IT AINT BROKE, DONT FIX IT: WHY THIS APPROACH TO THE MEDICATION- 

USE PROCESS IS NOT SAFE FOR PATIENTS 20-399734 APPROVED 

VACCINATION FOR PNEUMOCOCCUS, SHINGLES AND INFLUENZA 20-401866 APPROVED 

REDUCING AND PREVENTING MEDICATION ERRORS/HIV UPDATE-2013 20-404236 APPROVED 

REDUCING MEDICATION ERRORS THROUGH IMPLEMENTING A 

CONTINUOUS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 20-406133 APPROVED 

MEDICATION ERROR PREVENTION: A GUIDE FOR PHARMACISTS 20-400390 APPROVED 

HIV/AIDS 2 HOUR UPDATE FOR KENTUCKY HEALTH PROFESSIONALS 20-306388 APPROVED 

PREVENTING MEDICATION ERRORS FOR PHARMACISTS 20-401865 APPROVED 

MEDICATION ERRORS: TO ERR IS HUMAN 20-398499 APPROVED 

TIME IS BRAIN: GUIDELINES FOR THE EARLY MANAGEMENT OF PATIENT 

WITH ACUTE ISCHEMIC STROKE 20-399610 APPROVED 

CUTTING RISKS: MEDICATION AND MEDICAL ERRORS PREVENTION TO 

ENSURE PATIENT SAFETY 20-400821 APPROVED 

SENIOR CARE CENTRAL FLORIDA 2013 20-404295 APPROVED 

OSHA & BIOHAZARDOUS WASTE ANNUAL REVIEW 20-402522 APPROVED 

FLORIDA MEDICATION ERROR REDUCTION 20-393736 APPROVED 

PRESCRIPTION FOR A MEDICAL ERROR PREVENTION 20-399756 APPROVED 

6TH ANNUAL CENTRAL FLORIDA SOCIETY FALL SEMINAR 20-402942 APPROVED 

MEDICAL AND MEDICATION ERRORS 20-399592 APPROVED 

MEDICATION SAFETY: STRATEGIES FOR PREVENTING MEDICATION ERRORS 20-401847 APPROVED 

REGULATORY AND LAW CONFERENCE 20-406120 APPROVED 

20TH ANNUAL MEETING OF THE SOUTH FLORIDA SOCIETY OF NUCLEAR 

MEDICINE TECHNOLOGISTS 20-407314 APPROVED 

IF IT AINT BROKE, DONT FIX IT: WHY THIS APPROACH TO THE MEDICATION- 

USE PROCESS IS NOT SAFE FOR PATIENTS 20-399735 APPROVED 

REDUCING MEDICATION ERRORS IN YOUR PRACTICE 20-399679 APPROVED 

CLINICAL UPDATES IN HIV THERAPY AND MANAGEMENT 20-400791 APPROVED 

SENIOR CARE SOUTH FLORIDA 2013 20-404298 APPROVED 

PHYSICAL ASSESSMENT INSTITUTE PATIENT CARE MANAGEMENT 20-400576 APPROVED 

HIV/AIDS UPDATE 20-406137 APPROVED 

APOLOGY AND MEDICAL/MEDICATION ERRORS 20-398698 APPROVED 



Approved Date 

8/2/2013 

7/12/2013 
7/12/2013 

8/6/2013 
8/9/2013 

8/23/2013 

8/30/2013 
8/6/2013 

7/12/2013 
7/19/2013 
7/12/2013 

8/23/2013 

7/19/2013 
8/30/2013 

8/6/2013 
8/2/2013 

7/19/2013 
8/23/2013 
8/23/2013 

8/6/2013 
8/30/2013 

8/30/2013 

8/6/2013 
6/30/2013 
7/19/2013 
8/30/2013 
6/30/2013 
8/30/2013 
7/12/2013 



Individual Name Title of Course Hours Offered 
Wendy Heck Social and Behavioral Aspects of Community Health 4 hoers of general credit 
Wendy Heck Foundations of Biostatics 4 hours of general credit 
Laura Annis Preceptorship Program for Scientific Association of Novartis in the Disease Area of CIU/CSU 7.25 hours of general credit 
Alva Scott Anderson Current Concepts in Primary Care Cardiology 15 hours of general credit 
Mary Alison Anderson Current Concepts in Primary Care Cardiology 15 hours of general credit 
Chen-Chung Wang Advanced Pharmacy Practice Experience-Chronic Care 20 hours general credit 



MEETING MINUTES 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
FULL BOARD MEETING 

August 13-14, 2013 
Rosen Plaza Hotel 

9700 International Drive 
Orlando, FL 32819 

(407) 996-9700 

Board : 
Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair, Miami 
Jeffery J. Mesaros, PharmD, Vice-Chair, Tampa 
Leo J. "Lee" Fallon, BPharm, PhD, The Villages 
Debra B. Glass, BPharm, Tallahassee 
Cynthia Griffin, PharmD, Jacksonville 
Gavin Meshad, Consumer Member, Sarasota 
DeAnn Mullins, BPharm, Lynn Haven 
Lorena Risch, Consumer Member, Bradenton 
Michele Weizer, PharmD, Boca Raton 

Board : 
Mark Whitten, Executive Director 
Tammy Collins, Program Operations Administrator 
Jay Cumbie, Regulatory Specialist II 

Board : 
David Flynn, Assistant Attorney General 
Lynette Non, Assistant Attorney General 

Department of Health : 
Yolanda Green, Assistant General Counsel 
Matt Witters, Assistant General Counsel 

Tuesday, Au2ust 13, 2013 — 1:00 

p.m. Call to Order by Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair 

All Members were present. 

TAB 1 REPORTS 
A. Chair's Report — Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair 

No Information was discussed under the Chair's Report. 

B. Executive Director's Report — Mark Whitten 

Mark Whitten informed the Board that due to the 1:00 p.m. start time on the first day of the Board meeting, a 
committee meeting will be moved to the morning session at future Board meetings. 

1. Jeff Mesaros Rules Committee Update 

Lynette Non provided an update from the August 12, 2013 Rules Committee. 

Ms. Non introduced Rule 64B16-30.OO1 and discussed the changes made. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to approve the changes. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that there is not an adverse impact on small business. Motion 
carried. 

Page 1 of 20 



Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, that the changes will not raise regulatory costs in excess of 
$200,000. Motion carried. 

Ms. Non introduced Rule 64Bl6-28.450 and the proposed language that adds institutional pharmacies to the rule. 

Martin Dix approached the Board to state that voting to approve the nile for publication does not eliminate the 
ability to modify the rule. 

Larry Gonzalez approached the Board to echo the thoughts of Mr. Dix and urged the Board to move this rule 
forward. 

Mr. Garcia tabled the vote on this rule until later in order to give the Board members a chance to review the 
language. 

Ms. Non introduced Rule 64B 16-28.605 regarding automated distribution and packaging. 

Dr. Mesaros requested that, in the future, all the information that is sent to the Committee members be sent to all 
Board members for review. 

Dr. Mesaros updated the Board members and audience of the discussion from the Rules Committee regarding 
validity of prescriptions. 

Ms. Non informed the Board of Dr. Weizer's suggestion to review Rule 64B16-28.303 and Rule 64B16-28.301 
regarding destruction of controlled substances. 

Dr. Weizer provided an overview of the aforementioned rules and discussed the reasons for why the rules need to 
be reviewed. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to open rules 64B16-28.303 and 28.30 1 for review. Motion 
carried. 

Mr. Whitten requested that Mr. Garcia appoint two additional members to the Rules Committee. 

Mr. Garcia appointed Dr. Weizer and Dr. Griffin to serve on the Rules Committee. 

2. Michele Weizer Compounding Rules Committee Update 

Dr. Weizer provided an update from the Compounding Rules Committee and informed the Board and audience of 
the issues regarding a non-resident pharmacy in Texas having products recalled that they had shipped to Florida. 

Dr. Weizer discussed how USP797 is a clarification of the 2008 USP71 rule that is already in existence. 

Dr. Weizer informed the Board and audience that a full copy of USP797 is available for review in the Tallahassee 
Board office. 

Mr. Flynn suggested a workshop for the purpose of going through USP797 line by line and exempting the 
requirements or guidelines that would have an unnecessary disproportionate negative effect on small business. 

Ms. Mullins supported the idea of a noticed workshop to review USP797 to allow organizations such as the FPA 
to have workgroups prepared. Ms. Mullins also emphasized the importance of our rules being clear and defined 
as opposed to being just a reference to a chapter 

Page 2 of 20 



Mr. Garcia proposed the formation of a committee comprised of three Board members and six advisors from the 
field to work on issues such as adoption of USP797. 

Mr. Flynn informed the Board and audience that if said committee is to be formed; only the Board members 
would have voting rights. 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded by Dr. Mesaros, to form a special committee comprised of three Board 
members and six advisors. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Ms. Mullins, to have the chair of the compounding committee select the 
advisors for the special committee. Motion carried. 

Mr. Garcia stated that he would like this special committee to have met before the next Board meeting. 

Dr. Weizer introduced a letter from Ken Plante regarding office use compounding. 

Motion: by Mr. Garcia, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to respond to Mr. Plante reaffirming the Board's commitment to 
office use compounding. Motion carried. 

Mr. Flynn introduced the non-resident draft legislation and explained the edits to Section 465.0156 including the 
deletion of the language requiring the Florida Board to notify the non-resident Board before taking action. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to approve the proposed language in Section 465.0156 Florida 
Statutes. Motion carried. 

Mr. Flynn then introduced the changes to Section 465.0158 Florida Statutes, which refers to the Sterile 
Compounding Permit. 

Ms. Mullins stated, in regards to patient safety, the importance of non-resident sterile compounding pharmacies 
having to comply with the same sterile compounding rules as our in-state sterile compounding pharmacies. 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to approve the addition of language that states non-resident 
pharmacy sterile compounding standards must be substantially equivalent or greater to the standards in the state 
of Florida. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to approve the proposed language in Section 465.0158. Motion 
carried. 

Mr. Flynn introduced the changes to Section 465.017 Florida Statutes that would allow the Department to have 
the authority to enter into a non-resident pharmacy state and perform an inspection at the cost of the licensee. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Ms. Glass, to approve the proposed language in Section 465.0 17 Florida 
Statutes. Motion carried. 

Ms. Mullins informed the Board and audience about a statement written by NABP taking a position of support on 
Senate Bill 959 regarding compounding and requested comment from the rest of the Board members. 

Dr. Mesaros commented that Florida, as a whole, didn't have a comparative representation to some of the other 
Boards, Universities, and Associations that were present at the NABP District III meeting. Dr. Mesaros stated his 

Page 3of20 



belief that the statement made by NABP was not to speak for the Boards that don't agree but the cumulative 
sentiment at the National meeting, which was of support for Bill. 

Ms. Mullins stated her belief that Senate Bill 959 is not good for patient care in the current state it exists. 

3. Lee Fallon Report from FPA Meeting 

Dr. Fallon provided a report on his trips to the FPA Annual meeting in Orlando as well as the Southeastern 
Gathering in Destin, FL. 

Dr. Fallon reported that he and Mr. Whitten presented one hundred and twenty eight 50-year pharmacist 
certificates at the end of the FPA Annual meeting. Dr. Fallon stated that many of the recipients were present. 

4. Unlicensed Activity Report 

Mr. Whitten provided a report and informed the Board of some updates happening within the ULA program. 

15 Minute Break 

5. Request for PDM at Multiple Locations Central Florida Family Health Center, 
Inc. 

Central Florida Family Health Center, Inc. did not have a representative present. 

Motion: by Mr. Meshad, seconded by Ms. Glass, to deny the request. Motion carried. 

6. Correspondence Sister Emmanuel Hospital 

Carmen Aceves was present on behalf of Sister Emmanuel Hospital. 

Ms. Aceves requested guidance from the Board regarding the necessity for her hospital to acquire the new sterile 
compounding permit despite the fact that her hospital does not have a sterile products room. 

Mr. Flynn advised the Board that the Board cannot issue a license to the hospital if the hospital was unable to 
comply with all the laws and rules regulating sterile compounding. 

Mr. Garcia informed the Board that they would now be revisiting the Rules Committee report to discuss Rule 
64B16-28.901. 

Martin Dix and Harold Cleveland approached the Board to discuss the proposed changes to the rule. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Ms. Glass, to approve proposed changes to Rule 64B16-28.901. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Ms. Glass, that there is no negative impact on small business. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Weizer, that the proposed changes will not directly or indirectly increase 
regulatory costs to any entity including government in excess of $200,000.00 in the aggregate in Florida. 

C. Attorney General's Report — David Flynn, Assistant Attorney General 

Page 4 of 20 



1. Rules Report 

Mr. Flynn presented the Rules report. Mr. Flynn provided an update to Rule 64B16-28.l00 and stated that the 
rule will be left open the entire time he is with the Board in order to continue to make changes in a more 
expeditious manner. Mr. Flynn stated that Rules 64B16-26.1031 and Rule 64B16-26.302 have both been 
adopted. 

D. Prosecuting Attorney Report — Yolanda Green, Assistant General Counsel 
1. Prosecution Services Report 

Yolanda Green introduced herself and presented the Prosecution Services Report. 

Ms. Green informed the Board that the probable cause panel (PCP) agendas are now going to have a cap of 55 
cases maximum. Ms. Green stated that the cases over the cap of 55 will be heard on the dates that previously 
have been set aside exclusively for emergency suspension orders (ESO). 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to allow PSU to continue prosecuting old cases. Motion carried. 

E. Chief Investigative Services Report — Jeanne Clyne 

Mr. Whitten presented the Chief Investigative Services Report. Mr. Whitten stated that out of the 684 facilities 
that responded to the Board survey regarding sterile compounding, 194 stated that they perform only sterile 
compounding and 490 stated that they perform both sterile and non-sterile compounding. Mr. Whitten also stated 
that 97.5% of all pharmacy inspections for fiscal 2012-2013 have been completed. 

TAB 2 BUSINESS — Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair 

A. Ratification of Issued Licenses/Certificates & Staffing Ratios 
1. Pharmacist (Licensure) (Client 2201)— 137 
2. Pharmacist (Exam Eligibility) (Client 2201) 498 
3. Pharmacist Interns (Client 2202) 140 
4. Registered Pharmacy Technicians (Client 2208) 951 

5. Consultant Pharmacist (Client 2203) —41 

6. Nuclear Pharmacist (Client 2204) 2 

7. Pharmacies/Facilities (Client 2205) 103 

8. Registered Pharmacy Technician Ratios (2:1 or 3:1)- 58 
9. Pharmacy Technician Training Program (Client 2209) - 22 
10. CE Providers 14 
11. CECourscs-21 
12. CE Individual Requests (Approved) —0 

13. CE Individual Requests (Denied) - 0 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to ratify items #1-13. Motion carried. 

B. Review and Approval of Minutes 
1. June4-5,2013 

Ms. Mullins requested that two statements from the June meeting be rewritten. 

Dr. Mesaros and Dr. Griffin requested that Ms. LuGina Mendez-Harper and Mr. Kyle Parker from the June 
meeting have the spelling of their names corrected. 

Page 5of20 



Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded Dr. Griffin, to approve the minutes with changes. Motion carried. 

C. Presentations 
1. Board of Pharmacy Webs ite 

Allison Stachnik and Charlie Buck introduced the new Board agenda web portal. Ms. Stachnik stated that the 
new web portal is scheduled to be released in February. 

Ms. Stachnik then introduced and provided a walkthrough of the new Florida Board of Pharmacy website. 

Public : 
Mr. Garcia opened the floor to public comments. 

Mr. Fritz Hayes approached the Board to discuss the 2014 Maltagon meeting that will be hosted in Florida. Mr. 
Hayes recommended contacting a University in regards to preparation for the meeting. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Ms. Glass to ADJOURN the meeting at 4:31 p.m. Motion carried. 

Wednesday. August 14, 2013 9:00 . 
9:00 a.m. Call To Order by Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair 

All members were present except Dr. Jeff Mesaros. 

Mr. Garcia informed the audience that the meeting is being recorded and that an audio file will be posted to the 
website. Mr. Garcia informed the audience of live CE credit available. 

Dr. Weizer introduced 64B 16-28.450 regarding centralized prescription filling. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to approve the language. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Ms. Glass, that there is no negative impact on small business. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, that approval will not directly or indirectly increase regulatory 
costs to any entity, including government, in excess of $200,000.00 in the aggregate in Florida within one year of 
implementation. Motion carried. 

Mr. Garcia introduced Rule 64B16-30.001 to be voted on for reconsideration. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Ms. Glass, to reconsider Rule 64B16-30.001. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, that there is no negative impact on small business. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Ms. Glass, that approval will not directly or indirectly increase regulatory 
costs to any entity, including government, in excess of $200,000.00 in the aggregate in Florida within one year of 
implementation. Motion carried. 

Page 6 of 20 



TAB 3 DISCIPLINARY CASES Yolanda Green, Assistant General Counsel 

A. SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT- APPEARANCE REQUIRED CASES 
A-i Yader A Padilla, PSI 14777. Miami, FL 

Case No. 20i2-i73i6 PCP: Mullins/Glass/Weizer 

Respondent violated: 
Count One: Section 465.072(i)(x), F.S. (2010) by failing to report to the Board, or the department if there is no 
Board, in writing within 30 days after he was convicted or found guilty of, or entered a plea of nob contendere to, 
regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay fine of $1,000.00. 
Respondent shall pay costs in the amount of $3,000.00. Respondent must complete a Laws and Rules CE. 

Respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Ms. Risch, to reject the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to offer a counter settlement for revocation. Motion carried. 

A-2 Thomas John Lawley, PS 37816. Boca Raton, FL 
Case No. 20 13-02530, PCP: FallonlGriffin 

Respondent violated: 
Count One: Section 465.016(i)(m), F.S. (2012) by being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and 
safety by reason of use of alcohol. 
Count Two: Section 456.072(1)(hh), F.S. (2012) when PRN closed his file due to missing tests, refusing to 
refrain from practice, and testing positive for alcohol. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall by present. Respondent shall pay a fine of $1,000.00. 
Respondent shall pay costs of $5,000.00. Respondent must be evaluated by PRN and comply with any contract 
requirements. Respondent will be placed on probation for 5 years to run concurrent with his PRN contract. 
Respondent may not be prescription department manager for 2 years with his ability to act as prescription 
department manager be left to the discretion of PRN after the 2 year period. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was represented by Brian Kahan, Esq. 

Penny Ziegler (Professionals Resource Network) was present and stated Mr. Lawley is currently under contract 
and has been compliant. 

Motion: by Mr. Meshad, seconded by Ms. Mullins, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

A-3 G.M.G. Pharmacy and Discount, mc, PH 26024. Hialeah, FL 
Case No. 2012-16158 PCP Meshad/Weizer 

Respondent violated: 
Count One: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012) through a violation of Rule 64B16-28.109 F.A.C., which 
establishes that a pharmacy's prescription department shall be securely locked when the prescriptions department 
is closed. 

Page 7 of 20 



Count Two: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012) by violating Chapter 499, Florida Statutes, through a violation of 
Section 499.005(28), Florida Statutes (2012), which establishes that it is unlawful for any person to fail to acquire 
or deliver a pedigree paper as required under Part I of Chapter 499. 
Count Three: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012) by violating Chapter 499, Florida Statutes, through a violation 
of Section 499.005(1), Florida Statutes (2012), by holding and/or offering for sale, adulterated drugs. 
Count Four: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012) by violating Chapter 499(18), Florida Statutes (2012), through a 
violation of 61N-1.012(1)(a), F.A.C., which requires that records to document the movement of drugs, devices or 
cosmetics must provide a complete audit trail from a person's receipt or acquisition to sale of other disposition of 
the product or component. 

Terms of Settlement Agreement: Representative of Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine 
of $5,000.00. Respondent shall pay costs of $1,650.11. Respondent shall be placed on two year probationary 
period requiring semi-annual inspections at Respondent's cost; and mandatory appearance by representative of 
respondent during the last three months of probation. 

Hoiris Manrique (Owner of G.M.G. Pharmacy and Discount, Inc.) was present and sworn in the by the court 
reporter. Ms. Manrique was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Ms. Glass, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

A-4 Brashear's Vital Care Corp., PH 22730. Lecanto, FL 
Case No. 2012-34461 PCP Meshad/Weizer 

Respondent violated 
Count One: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S., (2009, 2010, 2011), by violating Section 465.016(1)(c), F.S. (2009, 
2010, 2011). 
Count Two: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S., (2009, 2010, 2011), by violating Section 465.016(1)(s), F.S. (2009, 
2010, 2011). 
Count Three: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S., (2011), by violation of Section 456.072(1)(m), F.S., (2011). 

Terms of Settlement Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay fine of $1,500.00. 
Respondent shall pay costs of $1,168.96. Respondent shall be placed on probation for two years including semi- 
annual inspections at Respondent's cost and an appearance before the Board of Pharmacy during the last three 
months of probation. 

Robert Brashear (President of Brashear's Vital Care Corp.) was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Mr. 
Brashear was represented by Brian Kahan, Esq. 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

A-5 Alan B. Wingerter, PS 14151. Palatka, FL 
Case No. 2012-12447 PCP FallonlRisch 

Count One: Respondent violated 465.0l6(1)(r), F.S. (2009-2011) by violating Rule 64B16-26.300(l), F.A.C., 
which states no person shall serve as consultant pharmacist as defined in Section 465.003(3), F.S., unless that 
person holds a license as a consultant pharmacist. 

Terms of Settlement Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine in the amount of 
$5,000.00. Respondent shall pay costs of $774.16. Respondent shall complete 12 hour Laws and Rules course. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was not represented by counsel. 

Page 8of20 



Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

A-6 Edward B. Beckles, PS 30937. Wesley Chapel, FL 
Case No. 2012-11079 PCP Weizer/Risch 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(c), F.S. (2012) by being convicted or found guilty of, or 
entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates 
to the practice of, or the ability to practice, a licensee's profession. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall pay costs not over $921.56. Revocation of License. 

Respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Motion: Dr. Griffin, seconded by Ms. Glass, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried 

A-7 Robert M. Bojarzin, PS 19647. Ft. Meyers, FL 
Case No. 20 12-09524 PCP Mullins/Glass/FallonlMeshad 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.015(1)(g), F.S.(2010) by using in the compounding of a 
prescription, or furnishing upon prescription, an ingredient or article different in any manner from the ingredient 
or article prescribed, except as authorized in Section 465.0 19(6) or Section 465.025. 

Terms of Settlement Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine of $500.00. 
Respondent shall pay costs not over $2,773.05. Respondent shall complete an 8 hour Medication Errors CE. 

Case was granted a continuance to the next Board of Pharmacy meeting. 

A-8 Cristina Zobeida Prades, PS 47726. Windermere, FL 
Case No. 2012-1908 1 - PCP Griffin/Mesaros 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(g), F.S. (2012), by furnishing upon prescription an 
ingredient or article different in any manner from the ingredient or article prescribed. 

Terms of Settlement Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine of $250.00. 
Respondent shall pay costs limited to $1,000.52. Respondent shall complete an 8 hour Medication Error CE. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Ms. Mullins, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

A-9 Jillian Vanessa Boyett, PS 38445. Orange Park, FL 
Case No. 2012-12827 PCP Mullins/Glass 

Count One: Section 465.016(1)(e), F.S., (2010, 2011, 2012) by violating Chapter 499; 21 U.S.C. ss. Known as 
the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act, or Chapter 893 through a violation of Section 
893.13(7)(a), F.S., F.S. (2010, 2011, 2012) , by acquiring or obtaining, or attempting to obtain possession of a 
controlled substance by misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception, or subterfuge. 
Count Two: Section 465.016(1)(i), F.S. (2010, 2011, 2012), by compounding, dispensing, or distributing a 
legend drug, including any controlled substance, other than in the course of professional practice of pharmacy. 

Page 9of20 



Terms of Settlement Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine of $5,000.00. 
Respondent shall pay costs limited to $3,000.00. Respondent shall complete a 12 hour Laws and Rules CE. 
Respondent must undergo PRN evaluation within 60 days of Final Order and comply with any contract offered. 
Respondent shall be placed on probation for 5 years. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was not represented by counsel. 

Penny Ziegler (PRN) stated that respondent has been compliant. 

Respondent requested an extension on payment of fees. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to reject the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept original Settlement Agreement terms with ability to 
pay fees over course of probationary period. License cannot be restored until fees are paid. Motion carried. 

A-10 Palm Springs General Hospital, PH 2235. Hialeah, FL 
Case No. 20 13-04842 PCP Mullins/Risch 

Count One: Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S. (2012) by violating Rule 64B16-27.797(1)(a), F.A.C. which requires an 
anteroom area to be maintained within ISO Class 8 level of particulate contamination. 
Count Two: Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S. (2012) by violating Rule 64B16-27.797(1)(f), F.A.C. which requires the 
buffer area to be maintained within ISO Class 7 level of particulate contamination and not contain a sink or drain. 
Count Three: Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S. (2012) by violating Rule 64B16-27.797(1)(k), F.A.C. which requires 
that the pharmacy compounding parenteral and sterile preparation shall have appropriate environmental control 
devices capable of maintaining at least class 100 conditions in the work place where critical objects are exposed 
and critical activities are performed. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine of $2,000.00. 
Respondent shall pay costs limited to $2,000.00. 

Case was granted a continuance to the next Board of Pharmacy meeting. 

B. DETERMINATION OF WAIVER 
DOW-i Mary's Pharmacy, Inc., PH 25755. Miami, FL 

Case No. 20 12-09094 PCP RischlGlass 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.023(i)(c), F.S., by violating Rule 64B16-28.1081, F.A.C., which 
requires that any person who receives a community pharmacy permit pursuant to Section 465.0 18 F.S., and 
commences to operate such an establishment shall keep the prescription department of the establishment open for 
a minimum of forty (40) hours per week. 
Count Two: Respondent violated Section 465.023(l)(c), F.S., by violating Rule 64B16-28.202(3), F.A.C., by 
failing to notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing as to the effective date of closure and return the pharmacy 
permit to the Board of Pharmacy office or arrange with the local Bureau of Investigative Services of the 
Department to have the pharmacy permit returned to the Board of Pharmacy, and notify the Board of Pharmacy 
which permittee is to receive the prescription files. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the purposes 
of imposing a penalty. Motion carried. 

Page 10 of 20 



Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to find that respondent was properly served and has waived the 
right to a formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion carried. 

Recommended Penalty: Revocation 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to accept the recommendations of the Department. Motion 
carried. 

DOW-2 Rebecca Jill Thomas, RPT 32912. Jacksonville, FL 
Case No. 2012-14117 PCP Weizer/Risch 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(x), F.S., (2012) by failing to report to the Board, or the 
department if there is no Board, in writing within 30 days after the licensee has been convicted or found guilty of, 
or entered a plea of nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction. 
Count Two: Respondent has violated Section 456.072(1)(c), F.S., (2012) by being convicted or found guilty of, 
or entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which 
relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, a licensee's profession. 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded by Ms. Glass, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the purposes 
of imposing a penalty. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded by Ms. Glass, to find that respondent was properly served and has waived the 
right to a formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded by Ms. Glass, to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded by Ms. Glass, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion carried. 

Recommended Penalty: Revocation 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded by Ms. Glass, to accept the recommendations of the Department. Motion 
carried. 

C. VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENTS 

yR-i, VR-2, and VR-5 

Motion: by Dr. Falbon, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to accept the Voluntary Relinquishments (yR-i, VR-2, VR-5). 
Motion carried. 

VR-3, VR-8, yR-b 

Page 11 of 20 



Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Ms. Glass, to accept the Voluntary Relinquishments (VR-3, VR-8, yR-b). 
Motion carried. 

yR-i Nelcia Anne Salmon, PS 28284. Plantation, FL 
Case No. 2012-13568 PCP Weizer/Meshad 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment executed by 
Respondent in resolution of this case. 

See motion at the beginning of the section. 

VR-2 Jose Carlos Morales-Hernandez, PS 26289. Miami, FL 
Case No. 2013-0365 1 PCP Weizer/Meshad 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment executed by 
Respondent in resolution of this case. 

See motion at the beginning of the section. 

VR-3 Quality Pharmacy, LLC, PH 25560. Tampa, FL 
Case No. 20 13-07690 PCP Waived 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment executed by 
Respondent in resolution of this case. 

See motion at the beginning of the section. 

VR-4 Coral West Pharmacy Inc., PH 14227. Coral Gables, FL 
Case No. 2011-09924 PCP Weizer/Risch 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment executed by 
Respondent in resolution of this case. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to accept the Voluntary Relinquishment. Motion carried. 

VR-5 Weight and Weilness Inc., PH 24846. Plantation, FL 
Case No. 2012-13571 Weizer/Meshad 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment executed by 
Respondent in resolution of this case. 

See motion at the beginning of the section. 

VR-6 Alma De Armas, RPT 4154. Miami, FL 
Case No. 20 12-06796 PCP Griffin/Mesaros 

Page 12 of 20 



The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment executed by 
Respondent in resolution of this case. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Ms. Glass, to accept the Voluntary Relinquishment. Motion carried. 

VR-7 Marc W. Donegan, PS 31403. Miami Beach, FL 

Case No. 2011-09628 PCP Mullins/Risch 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment executed by 
Respondent in resolution of this case. 

Pulled by Prosecuting Services Unit. 

VR-8 Aldo Patrick Schembari, RPT 43647. Madeira Beach, FL 
Case No. 2012-14195 PCP None 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment executed by 
Respondent in resolution of this case. 

See motion at beginning of the section. 

VR-9 Aldo Patrick Schembari, RPT 43647. Madeira Beach, FL 
Case No. 2012-14223 PCP Mullins/Risch 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment executed by 
Respondent in resolution of this case. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the Voluntary Relinquishment. Motion carried. 

yR-b Jamie Lynn Mills, RPT 21930. Rockledge, FL 
Case No. 2012-14470 PCP Waived 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment executed by 
Respondent in resolution of this case. 

See motion at the beginning of the section. 

D. BOARD ACTION BY HEARING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF 
MATERIAL FACT 

I-i Robert M. Poland, PS 19244. Jacksonville Beach, FL 
Case No. 20 13-00276 PCP Meshad/Weizer 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(r), F.S. (2012), by violating 465.022(1 1)(a), F.S. (2012) by 
failing to ensure the permittee's compliance with all rules adopted under those chapter as they relate to the 
practice of the profession of pharmacy and sale of prescription drugs. 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded Dr. Griffin, to refer I-i and 1-2 back to probable cause panel. Motion carried. 

Page 13of20 



Mr. Flynn explained to the Board and the audience that I-i and 1-2 have to be referred back to probable because 
there are no disciplinary guidelines for these particular violations. 

1-2 North Beaches Pharmacy Inc., PH 7967. Jacksonville Beach, FL 
Case No. 20 13-00327 PCP Weizer/Meshad 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.023(l)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Rule 64Bl6-27.797, F.A.C., 
by failing to conform to the standards of practice for compounding sterile preparations. 

Motion: See related motion from I-i. 

1-3 Robert C. Brashear, PS 15856. Inverness, FL 
Case No. 20 12-10948 PCP FallonlMeshad 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(o), F.S. (2008, 2009, 2010, 2011) by failing to report to the 
department any licensee under Chapter 458 or under Chapter 459 who the pharmacist knows has violated the 
grounds for disciplinary action set out in the law under which that person is licensed and who provides health care 
services in a facility licensed under Chapter 395, or a health maintenance organization certificated under Part I of 
Chapter 641, in which the pharmacist also provides services. 
Count Two: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(s), F.S. (2008, 2009, 2010, 2011) by dispensing any 
medicinal drug based upon a communication that purports to be a prescription as defined by Section 465.003(14) 
F.S. or Section 893.02, F.S. when the pharmacist knows or has reason to believe that the purported prescription is 
not based upon a valid practitioner-patient relationship. 
Count Three: Respondent violated Section 456.072(l)(m), F.S. (2011) by making deceptive, untrue, or 
fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of a profession or employing a trick or scheme in or related 
to the practice of a profession. 

The Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. The respondent was represented by Brian Kahan, 
Esq. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the purposes 
of imposing a penalty. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to find that respondent was properly served and has requested a 
formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion carried. 

Departments Recommendation: Revocation 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded by Ms. Risch, to reject the recommendations of the Department and impose a 
$500.00 dollar fine and require Respondent to complete a 12 hour laws and rules CE. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Ms. Glass, to require Respondent to pay fine and costs within 90 days. 
Motion carried with Ms. Mullins in opposition. 

1-4 Dino Jose Antonioni, PS 38504. Miramar, FL 

Page 14 of 20 



Case No. 2012-14458. PCP GriffrnlMesaros 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(c), F.S. (2012) by being convicted of found guilty of, or 
entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates 
to the practice of, or the ability to practice pharmacy. 

1-4 pulled due to issue with notice. Respondent must be notified in Federal prison. 

1-5 La Perla Pharmacy, Inc., PH 24200. Miami, FL 
Case No. 20 12-18263. PCP MeshadlWeizer 

Respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Count One: Respondent violated 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012) by violating Rule 64B16-28.109 F.A.C. 

Motion: by Matt Witters of Prosecuting Services Unit, seconded by Ms. Mullins, to pull the case for further 
investigation. Motion carried. 

1-6 Vinesh C. Darji, PS 32062. Tampa, FL 
Case No. 2010-08165. PCP FallonlRisch 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(e), F.S. (2012), by violating Chapter 499; 21 U.S.C. ss. 
301-392, known as the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetics Act, 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 et set., known as the 
Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act; or Chapter 893. 

Respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to allow case to be heard as an informal hearing. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the purposes 
of imposing a penalty. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to find that respondent was properly served and has requested a 
formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion carried. 

Departments Recommendation: Revocation of both Pharmacist License and Consultant Pharmacist 
License (1-7 companion case). 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the recommendations of the Department. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Ms. Glass, to allow Department withdraw motion to asses costs. Motion 
carried. 

Page 15 of 20 



1-7 Vinesh C. Darji, PU 5660. Tampa, FL 
Case No. 2010-08164 PCP FallonlRisch 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(e), F.S. (2012), by by violating Chapter 499; 21 U.S.C. ss. 
301-392, known as the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetics Act, 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 et set., known as the 
Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act; or Chapter 893. 

See motion from 1-6. 

1-8 Tyronda Sanks, RPT 22120. Lauderhill, FL 
Case No. 2012-14090 PCP Mullins/Mesaros 

Count One: Respondent violated 465.016(1)(e), F.S. (2011) by violating 893.13(6)(a), F.S. (2011), and Section 
893.13(1)(a), F.S. (2012) when she sold the promethazine with codeine syrup. 

Respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to allow case to be heard as an informal hearing. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, accept the investigative report into evidence for the purposes of 
imposing a penalty. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to find that respondent was properly served and has requested a 
formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Ms. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion carried. 

Departments Recommendation: Revocation 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to accept the recommendations of the Department. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Ms. Glass, to allow the Department withdraw motion to assess costs. 
Motion carried. 

1-9 Lloyd Sylvestre Jones, RPT 18104. Miramar, FL 
Case No. 2012-16183 PCP Mullins/Glass 

Count One: Section 456.072(1)(o), F.S. (2011), by practicing or offering to practice beyond the scope permitted 
by law ort accepting and performing professional responsibilities the licensee knows, or has reason to know, the 
licensee is not competent to perform. 

Count Two: Section 465.016(l)(e), F.S. (2011) through a violation of Chapter 499; 21 U.S.C. ss. 201-392, 
known as the Federal Food, Drug, and cosmetic Act; 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 Ct seq., known as the Comprehensive 
Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act, or Chapter 893. 

Page 16 of 20 



Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was represented by Lee Pulliam 
(Qualified Representative). 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to allow case to proceed as an informal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the purposes 
of imposing a penalty. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to find that respondent was properly served and has requested a 
formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by, Dr. Fallon, to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion carried. 

Departments Recommendation: Revocation 

Motion: by Mr. Garcia, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to accept the recommendations of the Department. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to allow Department to withdraw their motion for costs. Motion 
carried. 

TAB 4 APPLICATIONS REQUIRING BOARD REVIEW 

A. Examination Applicants 
1. Olufeyikemi Awobusuyi, File No. 43898. Melbourne, FL. 

Applicant was not present. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Mr. Garcia, to allow applicant to sit for the exam but not issue a license until 
a PRN evaluation has been completed. Motion failed with Dr. Weizer, Dr. Fallon, Ms. Mullins, and Ms. Risch in 
opposition. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to allow applicant to sit for the exam but not issue the license 
until applicant has undergone a PRN evaluation and had that evaluation reviewed by the Board chair. Motion 
carried. 

2. Ryan Richard Hire, File No. 43669. Naples, FL. 

Applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Penny Zeigler (PRN) informed the Board that the applicant has been compliant with his PRN contract. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Mr. Garcia, to allow applicant to sit for the exam. Motion carried. 

3. Markus Ville Tiitto, File No. 43573. West Palm Beach, FL. 

Applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Page 17 of 20 



Penny Zeigler (PRN) informed the Board that the applicant has been compliant with PRN contract. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to allow applicant to sit for the exam. 

4. John Major, File No. 43928. Indian Shores, FL. 

Applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Ms. Mullins, to allow applicant to sit for the exam. License shall not issue 
until PRN evaluation. If the applicant requires a contract, the decision on license delegated to Board chair. 

Bob Panado approached the Board to discuss a restaurant in the Orlando called "The Pharmacy". Mr. Parrado 
gave a description of the operation and stated to the Board that he believes their operation is in violation of 
Florida law and should be looked into further. 

B. Endorsement Applicants 
1. Cynthia Cruiser, File No. 42614. Narragansett, RI. 

Applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Motion: Dr. Griffin, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to approve the application. Motion carried. 

2. Louis P. Sosa, File No. 43580. Ormond Beach, FL. 

Applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to approve the application. Motion carried. 

C. Pharmacy Intern Applications. 
1. Adam Thomas Gabriel, File No. 19045. Worcester, MA. 

Applicant was not present. 

Penny Zeigler (PRN) approached the Board to inform them that PRN has the ability to identify and refer people to 
an evaluator in their home state. Ms. Zeigler stated PRN would vet the evaluator and that the evaluation would be 
considered a Florida PRN evaluation. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to approve the application pending a PRN evaluation, 
compliance with PRN for one year, and appearance in front the Board after the year of compliance for a 
determination to be made. Motion carried. 

D. Registered Pharmacy Technician Applications. 
1. Torey Jamal Smothers, File No. 50085. Miami, FL. 

Applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to approve the application. Motion carried. 

2. Ashley Woof, File No. 49512. Interlachen, FL. 

Page 18of20 



Applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Ms. Glass, to approve the application. Motion carried. 

3. William Ermatinger, File No. 49333. Spring Hill, FL. 

Applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to approve the application. Motion carried. 

E. Non-Resident Pharmacy Permit Applications. 
1. CarePoint Healthcare, LLC, File No. 19907. Schaumburg, IL. 

Bhavesh Patel was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Dr. Weizer, grant permit with the condition that the applicant will not ship 
sterile compounded products into the state of Florida. Motion carried. 

2. Monroe Clinic Drugs, File No. 20073. Jackson, LA. 

Applicant was not present. 

Motion: by Dr. Griffin, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to reject the application. Motion carried. 

TAB 5 LICENSURE ISSUES 

A. Request for Termination of Probation 
1. Kenneth S. Ginsburg, PS 25202. Lake Worth, FL. 

Petitioner was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to terminate probation. Motion carried. 

B. Request for Reinstatement of License 
1. Anita Danna-Grimes, PS 30356. Mobile, AL. 

Petitioner was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to grant reinstatement with conditions that the petitioner can 
only work at one location, cannot be a prescription department manager, and must be compliant with PRN. 

2. Daniel Shack, PS 19555. Delray Beach, FL. 

Petitioner was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to deny the request for reinstatement. Motion canied. 

C. Request for Board Appearance. 
1. Amy K. Johnson, PS 15668. Gainesville, FL. 

Petitioner was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Petitioner was represented by Brian Kahan Esq. 

Page 19of20 



Penny Zeigler (PRN) stated that petitioner has been compliant with all PRN contract requirements. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to terminate PRN contract. Motion carried. 

D. Request for Appeal of Application Denial. 
1. Ronald Lewis Jackson, File No. 42679. Daphne, AL. 

Petitioner was present and sworn in by the court reporter. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to vacate notice of intent to deny. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Ms. Mullins, to approve withdrawal of application. Motion carried. 

Public : 
Mr. Garcia opened the floor to public comments: 

Ms. Mullins spoke about NABP and their support for Senate Bill 959. Ms. Mullins stated the Bill gives the FDA 
more power and takes away authority from state Boards of Pharmacy. 

David Joseph approached the Board to inform them of a proposed language in the House that is related to Senate 
Bill 959 that is vastly different from the version in the Senate. Mr. Joseph clarified it is not a Bill as of now but is 
expected to be a Bill once session starts back up. 

Motion: by Ms. Mullins, seconded by Mr. Meshad, to have Executive Director Mark Whitten contact Carmen 
Catizone of NABP and invite him to participate in the Special Compounding Committee to discuss the NABP 
support of Senate Bill 959. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Griffin, to adjourn meeting at 2:11p.m. Motion carried. 

Page 20 of 20 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

_______________ 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS state, county & community efforts 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201202690 

PREMIER COMPOUNDING PHARMACY, INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: PREMIER COMPOUNDING PHARMACY, INC 
2000 PGA BLVD SUITE 5507 
PALM BEACH GARDENS, FL 33408 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF 
PHARMACY on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is required to be 
present at this meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan 
Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850)-236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may 
be heard earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m. 
;therefore, it is imperative that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the 
meeting for several hours until your case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of 
Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

Executive Director 
OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C04 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance• Bureau of HCPR ITTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Minion: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health — - 

of all people in Flodda through Integrated L'U John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State In the Naflon 

TO: 

MEMORANDUM 
Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Phar 

FROM: Lucy Schneider, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Settlement Agreement 

DOH v. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 
DOH Case Number: 2012-02690 

DATE: August 7. 2013 
Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed oh the agenda far 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following information 
is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 
Subject's Address of 2000 PGA Blvd Suite #5507 
Record: Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33408 

Enforcement Address: 2000 PGA Blvd Suite #5507 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33408 

Subject's License No: 23481 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 15528 

Initial Licensure Date: 7/14/2008 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: Yes 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2011) by 
violating Section 499.005(22), Florida Statutes (2011) 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: September 25, 2012; Weizer & Mesaros 

Subject's Attorney: Edwin A. Bayo 
Grossman, Furlow & Bayo, LLC 

• 2022-2 Raymond l Road 
Tallahassee, FL 32308 

• Complainant/Address: Department Of Health/Investigative Services 
Unit-West Palm Beach 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Settlement Agreement 
Notice of Scrivener's Error 

Exhibit A- Complaint 
Board Notification Letter 

Florida Department of Health www.FiorldasHeaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel • ServIces Unt 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, ,FL 32399-1701 leaith 
Express mail address; 2585 Merchants Row — Sute 105 YOUTUBE- fldoh 
PHONE: 8501245-4444 . FAX 850/245-4683 



Election of Rights 
Cost Summary Report 
Defense Attorney/Respondent Documents 
Prosecutor's Documents 
Supplemental Investigative Report dated 

6/19/12, 7/19/12 & 7/26/12 
PCP Memo 
Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1-6 

LS/bhh/ab 

DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES: 

Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes, through a violation of chapter 499 by operating 
without a repackaging and/or whole retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit: 
Utilized closest disciplinary guideline for unpermitted practice - minimum $2,500 fine up to 
revocation. 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: SEtTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

This is a one count administrative complaint alleging Respondent violated Section 
465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2011), by violating Chapter 499, Florida Statutes, 
through a violation of Section 499.005(22), Florida Statutes (2011), which establishes 
that it is unlawful for any person to fail to obtain a permit or registration, or operate 
without a valid permit or registration as required by Chapter 499, in this case a 
prescription drug repackager permit required by Section 499.01(2)(b), Florida Statutes, 
and/or a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit required by Section 
499.01(2)(f), Florida Statutes. 

Mitigating /Aggravating Conditions: None 

Terms of Settlement Agreement: 

• Appearance 
• Fine of $3,000.00 
• Costs not to exceed $3,976.92 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

]tONER, 
CASE 0 

PREMIER COMPOUNDING 
PHARMACY, ., 

RESPONDENTO 

SE1TLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, Premier Compounding 

Pharmacy, Inc., was a permitted community pharmacy in the state of 

Florida, having been issued permit number PH 23481. Respondent's 

mailing address of record is 2000 PGA Boulevard, Suite 5507, Palm Beach 

Gardens, Florida 33408. 

DON v. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. I 

Case No. 2012-02690 



2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that it is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department. 

2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

1. - Respondent's representative shall be present 

when this Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath 

shall answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3,000.00). The fine shall be paid 

by Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, 

DOH v. Premier compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 

Case No. 2012-02690 



florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final Order) is 

with the Department Clerk. Payment must be made by cashier's 

check or money order . Personal Checks shaH NOT be accepted. 

3. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed THREE NINE 

HUNDRED AND SEVENTY SIX DOLLARS AND NINETY TWO CENTS 

($3,976.92). Total costs shall be assessed when the Settlement 

Agreement is presented to the Board. The costs shall be paid by 

Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance Management 

Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, Florida 32314- 

6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order is filed with the 

Department ClErk. Payment must be made by cashier's check or 

money order . Personal Checks shall NOT be accepted. 

4. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 49g or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

DOH v. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 3 

Case No. 12-02690 



5. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order àf the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

6. No Force or Effect until l - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

7. Purpose of Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it i5 presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

DON v. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 4 

Case Mo. 2012-02690 



the presentation and considerauon of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

8. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

g. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and Costs- Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and from the Department in 

connection with this disciPhnaflh proceeding. 

10. 

Respondent waives all rights 

to further 
procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Sewerfleflt Agreement and the Final Order. 

t. Current - Respondent shafl keep current its mailing 

address and practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer and shaU the Board of PharmacY and the 

5 

DOH v. Premier 
Inc. 

case No. 



Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this 

matter. 

SIGNED this/ / — day of 1) fr 2012 

/ 
./ 

Premier Cdmpounding Pharmacy, Inc. 
CASE NO. 2012-02690 

COUNTY OF I 

Before me personally appeared 
is known to me or by 

whose identity 

______ 

(type of 

identification), and who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature 
appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 2 day of 2012. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

DOH v, Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 
Case No. 2012-02690 

STATE OF 

PAY RIBERT 
MY COMMISSION EE 144926 

EWIRES: November 6,2015 
Bonded Nv Urdatci 

6 



DOM v. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 
Case No. 2012-02690 

Ltcy 1/ 

Assistant denerai Counsel 
of Health 

DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Fla. Bar No. 0815349 
Telephone: (850) 245-4640 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4680 

APPROVED this 

____ 

day of 

JOHN 

20p0 

'on General and 

4 
9 / 



Page 1 of 1 

Schneider, Lucy 

From: Reinhart, Bruce breinhart© mcdonaldhopkins.comj 

Sent: Monday, December 31,2012 10:32AM 

To: Schneider, Lucy 

Subject: Premier Compounding Pharmacy Settlement Agreement 

Attachments: BOP settlement agreement (411 9945).P DF 

Lucy, 

Attached is an executed copy of the Settlement Agreement. I will forward the original under 
separate cover. 

Bruce Reinhart 

Bruce E. Reinhart 1: 561-472-2970 
Member 

Www.rncdonaldhopkins.com 

tv\ c Do no Id Flag ler Center Tower 
— 505 South Flagler Drive I\lI I,) Suite 300 

- - West Palm Beach, FL 33401 S covisory arid covococy law flrni 

Chibago • Cleveland • Columbus • Detroit • Miami • West Palm Beach 

IRS CIRCULAR 230 DISCLOSURE: 

To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Service, we inform you that any tax 
advice contained in this communication (including any attachments), was not intended or written to be used, and 
cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of (1) avoiding any penalties under the Internal Revenue Code 
or (2) promoting, marketing or recommending to another party any transaction matter addressed herein. 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS TRANSMISSION IS ATTORNEY PRIVILEGED ANDJOR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION INTENDED 
FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY NAMED ABOVE. IF THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, 
YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY 
PROHIBITED. IF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS TRANSMISSION IN ERROR, PLEASE IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY ME BY TELEPHONE AND 
PERMANENTLY DELETE THE ORIGINAL AND ANY COPY OF THIS E-MAIL AND DESTROY ANY PRINTOUT THEREOF. 

PAm 
Not sp am 
Forgçfprevious vote 

1/2/20 13 



DEPARTMENT OF 
DEPUTY CLERK 

STATE OF FLORIDA CLERK Angel 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH DATE OCI 1 z 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

CASE 

PREMIER COMPOUNDXNG 
PHARMACY, ., 

_I 
NOTICE OF SCRIVENER'S ERROR 

Petitioner, the Florida Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, hereby files this Notice of Scrivener's Error, and as 

grounds therefore states: On or about September 27, 2012, Petitioner filed 

an Administrative Complaint against the pharmacy license of Respondent, 

Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 

1. Due to a clerical error in paragraph twenty-three (23), it is 

alleged that Respondent violated Section 465(1)(c), Florida Statutes 

(2011). 

2. Paragraph (23) shOuld teflé?i that Respondent is 

alleged to have violated Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida (2011). 



3. The correction of this error is of no prejudice to Respondent 

and makes no substantive change to the Administrative Complaint. 

4. This Notice shalt take effect upon its filing with the Clerk of the 

Department. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner request that the Admhiistrative Complafl 

filed against the License of Premier Compounding Pharmacy, be amended 

to reflect the correction detailed above. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD 
State,%ycg eral and Secretary of t-lealth 

Lucy neider 
As.si General 
Florl a Department of Health 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida .32399-3265 
Pta. Bar No.: 0815349 
Telephone: (850) 245-4M0 

(850) 245-4680 

DeparUnent of Health v. Prwnid Con;po.unding Pharmacy 2 
Case Number: 2012-026g0 
Sctverins Error 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Notice of Scrivener's Error has been provided by U.S. rnaU this 12th day of 

October, 2012, to Premier Compounding Pharmacy, mc, 2000 PGA 

Boulevard, 5507, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33408. 

of Heath v. Premier Pharmacy 
Case Number: -02590 
SatvaiersEntr 

3 

ineider 
General 



, 
PREMIER COMPOUNDING 
PHARMACY, INC., 

RESPONDENT. 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh 

I 

CASE 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner, the Florida Department of Health (Petitioner), by and through 

the undersigned counsel, hereby files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Premier Compounding Pharmacy, 

Inc. (Respondent), and in support thereof would state 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regutaUng the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, Respondent 

was a retail pharmacy permitted as a community pharmacy within the state of 

Florida, having been issued permit number PH 23481. 

DE?ARTMENT OF HEALTK, 

V 



3. Respondent's address of record is 2000 PGA Boulevard, Suite 5507, 

Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33408. 

4. North County Surgicenter (NCS) is an outpatient surgical center 

located at 4000 Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. NCS 

possesses a Type B Modified Class II Institutional pharmacy permit within the 

State of Florida, having been issued permit number PH 12060. 

5. On or about November 3, 2011, NCS shipped twenty (20) packages 

of 5ml vials of Fentanyl to Respondent. 

6. Respondent repackaged the twenty (20) packages of 5 ml vials of 

Fentanyl received from NCS, into fifty (50) packages of 2 ml vials of Fentany!, 

that were shipped back to NCS on or about November 6, 2011. 

7. Fentanyl is a prescription drug according to Section 499.003, Florida 

Statutes, and a Schedule II controlled substance under Chapter 893, Florida 

Statutes. 

8. Section 499.003(49), Florida Statutes (2011), defines "repackage" 

to include repacking or otherwise changing the container, wrapper, or labeling 

to further the distribution of the drug, device, or cosmetic. 

DOH v. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 2 
Case No: 2012-02690 



I i-ioriuc Statutes (2011), 

prescription drug repackager permit is required for any person that 

10. Respondent sold or transferred the Fentanyl directly to NCS. 

Florida Statutes defines "wholesale 

12. Section 499.01(2)(f), 

retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit is required for any retail 

pharmacy engaged in wholesale distribution of prescription drugs in this state. 

13. Respondent was operating as a prescription drug repackager 

without possessing a prescription drug repackaging permit, and/or 

Respondent was operating as a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor 

without possessing a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit. 

14. On or about November 17, 2011, NCS shipped thirty (30) packages 

of 5m1 vials of Fentanyi to Respondent. 

DOH v. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, inc. 
Case No: 2012-02690 

9- Section 499.01(2)(b), 

repackages a prescription drug in this state 

establishes that a 

sale or transfer was not patient-specific. Therefore, the drugs were not being 

a wholesale distribution. 

Such 

dispensed to NCS as the patient's agent, but were being sold or transferred as 

. Section 499.003(54), 

distribution" as distribution of 

consumer or patient. 

(2011), 

prescription drugs to persons other than 

Florida 

a 

Statutes (2011) establishes that a 



15. Respondent repackaged the thirty (30) packages of 5 ml vials of 

Fentanyl received from NCS, into seventy-five (75) packages of 2 ml vials of 

Fentanyl, that were shipped back to NCS on or about November 17, 2011. 

16. As set forth above, Respondent was operating as a prescription 

drug repackager without possessing a prescription drug repackaging permit, 

and/or Respondent was operating as a retail pharmacy drug wholesale 

distributor without possessing a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor 

permit. 

17. on or about December 20, 2011, NCS shipped thirty (30) packages 

of 1 vials of Fentanyl to Respondent. 

18. Respondent repackaged the thirty (30) packages of 5 ml vials of 

Fentanyl received from NCS, into seventy-five (75) packages of 2 ml vials of 

Fentanyt, that were shipped back to NCS on or about December 22, 2011. 

19. As set forth above, Respondent was operating as a prescription 

drug repackager without possessing a prescription drug repackaging permit, 

and/or Respondent was operating as a retail pharmacy drug wholesale 

distributor without possessing a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor 

permit. 

DOH v. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 4 
Case Nc; 2012-02690 



20. On or about April 10, 2012, NCS shipped four (4) packages of 50 

mcg/ml vials of Fentanyl to Respondent. 

21. Respondent repackaged the four (4) packages of 50 mcg/ml vials of 

Fentanyl received from NCS, into one hundred (100) packages of 25 mcg/ml 

vials of Fentanyl, that were shipped back to NCS on or about April 10, 2012. 

22. As set forth above, Respondent was operating as a prescription 

drug repackager without possessing a prescription drug repackaging permit, 

and/or Respondent was operating as a retail pharmacy drug wholesale 

distributor without possessing a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor 

permit. 

23. Section 465(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2011), provides that the board 

may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee, and may fine, 

place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy permittee who has 

violated any of the requirements of chapter 499, Florida Statutes. 

24. Section 499.005(22), Florida Statutes (2011), provides that it is 

unlawful for a person to fail to obtain a permit or registration, or operate 

without a valid permit when a permit or registration is required by this part for 

that activity. 

DOH v. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 5 
Case No: 2012-02690 



25. As set forth above, Respondent operated as a prescription drug 

repackager and/or retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor without the 

possessing the required permits. 

26. Based upon the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2011), by violating Chapter 499, Florida 

Statutes, through a violation of Section 499.005(22), Florida Statutes (2011), 

which establishes that it is unlawful for any person to fail to obtain a permit or 

registration, or operate without a valid permit or registration as required by 

Chapter 499, in this case a prescription drug repackager permit and/or a retail 

pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of Pharmacy 

enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: permanent 

revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of practice, 

imposition of an administrative fine, issuance pf a reprimand, placement of 

the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees billed or 

collected, remedial education any other relief that the Board deems 

appropriate. 

SIGNED this 7 day 2012. 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

DOH v. Premier Compoundino Pharmacy, Inc. 6 
Case No: 2012-02690 



/ I 

/ 

LucySchneider, Assistant General Counsel 
Services Unit 

Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Taliahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
(850)245-4640 Telephone 
(850)245-4683 Facsimile 
Florida Bar No. 0815349 

/LS 
PCP: September 25, 2012 
PCP Members: cu 5 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted ht 
accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to be 
represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to present 
evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses and to 
have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or her 
behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred costs 
related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. Pursuant 
to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall assess costs 
related to the investigation and prosecution of a disciplinary matter, 
which may include attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent in 
addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DOM v. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 7 
Case No: 2012-02690 



Mission: 
To protect promote & impmve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTh 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon Generai & Secretary 

August 7, 2013 

Edwin A. Bayo, Esquire 
Grossman. Furlow & Bayo, LLC 
2022-2 Raymond Diehi Road 
Tallahassee, FL 32308 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Re: DOH vs. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 
DOH Case Number: 2012-02690 

Dear Mr. Bayo: 

The Settlement Agreement previously entered into by the parties in the case is presently being 
scheduled to be heard at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board, Please be advised your 
case Will be set at the convenience of the Department and/or the Board and you will be notified of the 
date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to this office. 

LS/ab 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the Genera Coutisel Prosecuton Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 FAX 850/245-4683 

lthyFLA 
FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHeaIth 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 

Counsel 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Compiaint Cost Summary 
N urn her: 201202690 

Sub 
N attic: 

Page 1 of 1 

(\522. 

1/2/2013 

I 
PHAR?vIACTh. INC 

Cost to Date 

Hours ('was 1 SI I 

23.001 Si 
LegaL: ] 1 
liance: 0.001 0 

I 

Sub TotaL 
] 

45.50 L 51626.04 
Expenses w Date: so.oo 

Prior Amount: 
I I 

Costs i Date: 
] I 

51626.04 

103 ! j 



Minion: 
To protect promote & improve the health 

of all people In Flodda through Integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. A,nstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretaty 

August 7, 2013 

Edwin A. Bayo, Esquire 
Grossman, Furlow & Bayo, LLC 
2022-2 Raymond l Road 
Tallahassee, FL 32308 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State In the Nation 

Re: DOH vs. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 
DOH Case Number: 2012-02690 

Dear Mr. Bayo: 

The Settlement Agreement previously entered into by the parties in the case is presently being 
scheduled to be heard at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. Please be advised your 
case will be set at the convenience of the Department and/or the Board and you will be notified of the 
date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 

LS/ab 

Fiorlda D.partm.nt of H..ith 
Office of the General Counsel Prosecution SeMces Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row— Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 8501245-4683 

.alth.com 
1TTER:HealthyFLA 

FACE BOOK: F LOepa lea Ith 

YOUTIJBE: fldoh 

HEALTH 

free to this office. 

ral Counsel 



McDonald 
Hopkins McDonald Hopkins 

eR REGUL A 505 South Flagler Drive 
A business advisory and advocacy law LEGAL Suite 300 

Direct Dial: 561.472.2970 2012 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 

E-mail, breinharuñmicdonaldhopkins.com 29 4H 10: 
P 1.561.472.2121 
F 1561.472.2122 

October 24, 2012 

Byfacszmde to (850) 245-4683 

Lucy Schneider 
Assistant General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C65 
Tallahassee. Florida 323 99-3265 

Re: Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Case No. 2012-02690 

Dear Ms. Schneider: 

Thank you for taking the time to chat with me on Monday. I look forward to working 
with you. This letter will confirm that McDonald Hopkins LLC will be representing Premier 
Compounding Pharmacy in the above-cited matter. I will be the primary point of contact. 

Enclosed is an executed Election of Rights form indicating that we would like to pursue 
further settlement discussions in advance of an informal hearing before the Board of Pharmacy. 
To allow sufficient time for thorough and meaningful settlement discussions, we ask that this 
matter be placed on the agenda for the Board's meeting in February 2013. 

Please contact me at 561-472-2970 or at if you have 
any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Bruce B. Reinhart 

186:} Chicago I Cleveland I Columbus I Detroit I Miami I West Palm Beach 

www. ld hopkins. corn 



1ON OF RIGHTS 

DOH v. Premier Compounding Pharmacy, tnt. Case Na. 201 2-02S90 

PLEASE SELECT ONLY I OF THE 3 OPTIONS 

An of Rights is attached. If you do not understand these options, please consult with your attorney or the 
attorney for the Proseastion Unit at the address/phone numoer listed at the bottom or this IDrITt. 

OPTiON 1. 

______ 

Ida net dispute the allegations i in the Administrative Complaint, but do wish to be a hearing. —u 
pursuant to Sedion ), Florida SLatutes, at h time will be permitted to subrntt oral /ar wilben evldertrn in miUgaboncL 
the complaint to the Boarri. o > 
OPTION 2. 

______ 

I do not dispute the allegations of fad ontained In the Administrathje Complaint and waive my right to 
tto be heard, I requestthai the Board enter a final order pumuant to Section 120,57, lorida Statutes. 

OPTiON . I do dispute the allegations of fact contained in the Aarnbiistralive Carnpiaint and request this to be 

a petition for formal hearing, pursuant to Secton: 120.559(2)(a) and 120.57(1), Florida Statutes, before an Administrative Law Judge 
appointed by the Division of Adrnirustrative Keartngs. I specifically dispute the following paragraphs of the Adrnlnlstnthz 

C 
c.n t 

In addition to the above selection, I also elect the following: 

am interested in settling this case. 

I do not wish to continue practicing, have signed and returned the voluntary relinquishment of licensure form, if 

it has been provided. 

of whith option I have selected, I understand that I will be given notice of time, date, and place 
when this matter is to be considered by the Board tot Final Action. Medialion under Section 120.573 Florida 
Statutes, is not available in this matter, (Please sign and all the information below.) / w 

Athdress: j.,Onfl ?&4 
1CMM 

LtNo, 

PhoneNo, - 

sNo._____________________ 
STATE OF 
COUNT(OF 

Before me, personally whose identity or by 

________________________________________________ 

(type of Identification) and who, acknowledges that /her signature 

appears above. Sworn to or affirmed by Affant me this day of 

__________________________________ 

2012 

No my Pubbc-State of lorida 
- 

Type or Print Name FL 

PLEASE MAIL. AND/OR FAX COMPLETE!) EQ? scbxv ..f'S%Mdloer, istant General Courteat, I, Prosecution Services 
UnIt, 4052 SaId Way, Sin C-85, Tallahassee, Floflda Telephone Numbert 850) 2454540; FAX 245- 

4682; TOO 577i. 



M
cD

onald 
A

 business advisory and advocacy law
 

M
cD

onald H
opkins LIC

 

505 S
outh F

logler D
rive 

S
uite 300 

W
est P

alm
 

B
each, 

F
L 3340) 

Lucy S
chneider 

A
ssistant G

enerai C
ounsel 

P
rosecution S

et'vices U
nit 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent olH

ealth 
4052 B

ald C
ypress W

ay. B
in C

65 
T

allahassee, F
lorida 32399-3265 

L. 
t,jfl 

1 

- 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. 
Case Number: 2012-02690 

MEMBERS: Michele Weizer and Jeffrey Mesaros 

DATE OF ?: September 25. 2012 AGENDA ITEM: A-07 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise filly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

jj. Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.023(l)(c), Florida Statutes (201 1), by violating Chapter 499, Florida Statutes, through a 
violation of 499.005(22), Florida Statutes (2011), which establishes that it is unlawful for any person to fail 
to obtain a permit or registration, or operate without a valid permit or registration as required by Chapter 
499, in this case a prescription drug repackager permit and/or a retail pharmacy whole drug wholesale 
distributor permit. 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

____ 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

Date 



• STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: West Palm Beach Date of Case: 2/23/12 Case Number: 2012-02690 
Subject: 
PREMIER COMPOUNDING PHARMACY, INC 
2000 PGA 1 Suite 5507 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33406 
0: (561) 691-4991 

Source: 
DOH I ISU I West Palm Beach 
900 S. US Highway 1, Suite 207 
Jupiter, FL 33477 
0: (561) 743-4715 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
PH 23481 Pharmacy Pharmacy 5/29/12 
Period of investigation: Type of Report: 
03/07/12 — 5/29/12 FINAL 
Possible Violations: ES. 465.023(1)(c); 465.016(1)(e)(r); 456.072 (1)Q)(o); 693.03; FAC 64B16-26.1 10: 
non-compliance with the "Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act"; violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 
456; aiding, assisting, procuring, employing, or advising any unlicensed person or entity to practice a 
profession contrary to this chapter; practicing or offering to practice beyond the scope permitted by law or 
accepting and performing professional responsibilities the licensee knows, or has reason to know, the 
licensee is not competent to perform; and, failure of a licensee to take action in correcting the violation(s) 
within 15 days after notice may result in the institution of regular disciplinary . 
Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of an internally generated complaint (EX 1) 
submitted by the DOH as a result of a routine community pharmacy inspection (#1 05763) and a 
compounding inspection on 1/24/12 at PREMIER COMPOUNDING PHARMACY, INC (PREMIER) located 
in Palm Beach Gardens, FL. It is alleged that during the course of the routine inspection, violations 
were identified, as noted in the inspection reports (EX 4) including but not limited to: transferring 
drugs from PREMIER to NORTH COUNTY SURGI-CENTER, including incomplete DEA 222 forms; 
outdated stock on shelves due to inaccurate inventory/computer entries resulting in incorrect labeling 
of sub-compounded drugs that appear as expired; and, performing "centralized prescription filling" 
where PREMIER sends prescriptions to another pharmacy to be filled with their label, the filled 
prescription is sent back to PREMIER, relabeled and dispensed. 

j 

PREMIER'S owner was notified of the investigation in a letter dated 3/7/12 (EX 2) with a copy of the fr 
summary and the DOH's inspection #1 05763. 

A check of the Department computer records revealed that PREMIER COMPOUNDING IF4C. 
is currently licensed as a COMMUNITY PHARMACY. 

There is no patient involvement; therefore a patient notification letter was not required. — 

PREMIER COMPOUNDING PHARMACY is not known to be currently represented by an attorney. 

On 4/9/12, TRACY CHRISTIAN, R.Ph submitted a written response (EX 6) with supporting documents 
indicating it is her opinion that PREMIER is in compliance. 

Related Case(s): PS 2012-02762 

Approved By/Dat% p . i 
JACQUELINE lnv stigator WIlOl Investigation 'eServices 

Distribution: HQ/ISU • tfrlAY 3 0 2012 

• 

• DOHJMQA 
Tallahassee HQ 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPL r CASE 2012-02690 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 
1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 3-4 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 5 

Interviews and : 
NINA SAXON (Source) 6 
TRACY L. CHRISTIAN, R.Ph (Witness) 6-7 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary, complaint form, copy of DOH pharmacy inspection dated 1/23/12 8-14 

2. Copy of Subject Notification letter dated 3/7/12 15 

* 
3. Copies of 's reports, printouts and pictures obtained during the inspection 16-86 

4. Copies of all previous pharmacy inspections at PREMIER 87-97 

* 
5. Copies of the pharmacy re-inspection dated 5/21/12 with supports 98-160 

* 6. CHRISTIAN'S response packet 161-1 72 

ALL RECORDS PERTAINING TO THE PHARMACY INSPECTION INCLUDED IN THIS FILE HAVE 
BEEN FORWARDED TO PSU FOR COPYING AND INCLUDING IN THE INVESTIGATIVE 
REPORT FOR RELATED CASE PS 2012-02762. 

* EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE SEALED 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES. 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPt—--T CASE-—,JMBER: 2012 -02690 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 
On 3/6/12 and subsequent dates, this investigator met with DOH Inspector NINA SAXON, WI 86, to 
discuss community pharmacy inspection #95178 (EX1) which SAXON performed on 1/23/12 and 
which generated this complaint. SAXON found the following: 

o PREMIER is acting as a wholesaler and is repackaging medications they receive from 
NORTH COUNTY SURGI-CENTER, which purchases large packages of, but not limited to, 
Fentanyl in vials of 5m1, for example. These vials are sent to PREMIER who re-packages the 
Fentanyl in 2m1 syringes to control waste. However, neither NORTH COUNTY nor PREMIER 
hold wholesaler permits; the transfer of the medication is not recorded in DEA 222 forms; 
PREMIER is not recording the re-packaging procedure and there are no records of 
traceability maintained at PREMIER. 

• Multiple outdated compounds in stock were found in active stock. PREMIER claims the 
medication was not expired due to a computer generated error. Errors were found on labeling 
on manual sub-formula compounded drugs and that the computer generated labels were 
using bar-coded information from the label already in the computer. Staff is correcting the 
manual worksheet, but not updating the computer and the expired date on the bar-code label. 
PREMIER indicated they are addressing the issue and a new computer dedicated to the 
compounding of sterile preparations and bar-code function is forthcoming. It was noted that 
until the computer generated error is corrected, the expired dates on compounded stock 
remains incorrect. PREMIER does not know when the computer will be in place. 

• PREMIER is performing what they call centralized prescription . It was observed that 
PREMIER receives prescriptions including for HCG, a compounded hormone primarily used 
in weight loss; a doctor calls/faxes a prescription to PREMIER transfers the order 
by fax to KRS PHARMACY. KRS fills the prescription with a KRS label and then sends the 
filled prescription to PREMIER. PREMIER re-labels the prescription vial with PREMIER's 
label and dispenses the prescription as the filling pharmacy. 

On 5/21/12, a re-inspection was performed at PREMIER with Inspector SAXON, this investigator, 
along with DON Investigator, ROB SEIMETZ. Noted during the re-inspection were the following 
continued violations, with all copies obtained with pictures documented in (EX 5). TRACY 
CHRISTIAN, R.Ph was present during the re-inspection. 

• Medication labels and outdated stock, including compounds were still found in active stock. 
Additional outdated stock was found during the re-inspection. 

• The medication label errors discovered during the initial inspection were to be corrected 
once the new computer system was in place, per 's response (EX 6). The 
computer has been installed and in use, however the labels have not been corrected with 
the proper bar-coded information. On 5/21/1 2, CHRISTIAN advised this would be corrected 

• immediately. 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE r CASE :JMBER 2012 -02690 

During the re-inspection it was noted that employees utilizing the new computer are not 
entering their names at the time of sign-in, causing entries to be under the previous logged 
in user's name. The user name error potentially affects formula worksheets and all 
prescription documentation, if not corrected at sign-in. CHRISTIAN indicated immediate 
attention would be given to computer accuracy training. 

e The DEA 222 forms inspected appeared to be completed adequately. CHRISTIAN was 
advised to have the receiver of the medications to sign for the receipt within the body of the 
form since the purchaser is not always the receiver. 

• It was noted on the DEA 222 forms inspected that PREMIER continues to re-package 
Fentanyl for surgi-centers. CHRISTIAN indicated on 5/21/12 she has also diluted and 
repackaged Fentanyl at an institution's request, copies were provided. PREMIER's 
repackaging use to be in small vials; CHRISTIAN indicated syringes are preferable and 
most commonly requested. CHRISTIAN indicated it is her understanding that a Pharmacy 
wholesale permit is not required for "repackaging." CHRISTIAN's opinion is that she is 
compliant if therepackaging is tor "institutional use". 

• PREMIER also compounds Avastin 25 mg/mI O.05m1 injectable which is repackaged at 1 into 30G insulin syringes. CHRISTIAN indicated it is held at PREMIER and filled as 
needed. 

• CHRISTIAN indicated PREMIER accepted HCG (Human Chorionic Gonadotropin) 
prescriptions along with other hormone treatment prescriptions. PREMIER does not carry 
HCG and has to forward the requests to GBTRX in Boca Raton, FL. In the past, PREMIER 
would receive the filled prescription and dispense with PREMIER's label. CHRISTIAN 
indicated she discontinued this practice recently and no longer accepted prescriptions for 
HCG; a communication was sent to referring physicians that as a service to physicians and 
patients, PREMIER would continue to forward the HCG prescriptions to GBTRX, a 
pharmacy in Boca Raton, FL; however the filled prescription would be dispensed directly 
from GBTRX to the patient. 

• There were various licensed registered pharmacy technicians present during the 
inspection, including JENNIFER DIVELY, a technical student in training who was working 
under CHRISTIAN's direct supervision. DIVELY was advised to email her credentials and 
transcript to the Board of Pharmacy. 

• CHRISTIAN advised that PREMIER keeps a perpetual inventory of controlled substances II 

and Ill's. It was also observed that there was currently an overage in stock of six- 
Oxycodone 15 mg pills; CHRISTIAN was not aware of this. She advised she does not 
actively participate in the inventory process. It was suggested that she could strengthen the 
controls in place by signing-off at some interval of the inventory process. 

Page 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE RER---.r .-cJMBER: 2012 -02690 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECOROSIDOCUMENTS 
Exhibit I contains copies of the completed community pharmacy inspection 105763 on PREMIER 
COMPOUNDING PHARMACY, INC on 1/24/12. Included are SAXON's complaint forms and 
remarks. 

Exhibit 3 are SAXON's work sheets and copies of various supports she obtained during the 
routine inspection on 1/24/12 including but not limited to, DEA 222 forms, a biennial inventory 
dated 1/10/11; and prescription logs for the period 11/1/11 — 1/24/12. Included is a copy of a 
Central Fill Pharmacy Contract between Premier Compounding and KRS Global Biotechnology 
dated 6/14/10. 

Exhibit 4 includes three previous pharmacy inspections performed by DON Inspector NINA 
SAXON at Premier Compounding, with TRACY CHRISTIAN R. Ph. Inspection #95178 dated 
1/4/li. In addition to a few administrative non-compliance findings, SAXON noted records were 
not separated by drug class; that a controlled substance biennial inventory had not been 
performed; and that DEA 222 forms had not been completed correctly; CQI meetings were not 
documented as required and a disclosure statement was missing from the daily sign in log. 

A routine pharmacy inspection #84663 was attempted on 9/10/09 by SAXON, with TRACY 
CHRISTIAN, R.Ph. present, however SAXON noted required records were missing and the 
inspection wasfailed. A re-inspection was performed on 9/21/09 and documented on the same 
inspection # 84663. Among general administrative findings noted, the dispensing logs were found 
to be incomplete, inconsistent and not printed daily, and that records were not separated by drug 
class as required. 

PREMIER's New Pharmacy Inspection #77743 dated 7/10/08 indicated Premier passed with minor 
operational findings: phone rolled over to a personal cell and P&P needed to be printed. 

Exhibit 5 includes copies of PREMIER's re-inspection on 5/21/12, with copies of samples and 
pictures taken during the inspection, including communications from PREMIER to physicians 
regarding HCG prescriptions, copies of formula worksheets, copies of logs for Fentanyl 
prescription orders dispensed; Control II and Ill perpetual inventories, copies of DEA 222 forms; 
pictures of expired medications and compounds. 

Page 5 



DOll INVESTIGATIVE L - r CASE-.--JMBER: 2012 - 02690 

STATEMENT OF INSPECTOR NINA SAXON ) 
DOH / ISU I West Palm Beach 
900 S. US Highway 1 Suite 207 
Jupiter, FL 33477 
0: (561) 743-4715 

On 3/6/12 and subsequent dates, this investigator met with DOH Inspector NINA SAXON, WI 86, to 
discuss routine community pharmacy inspection #95178 (EXI) performed on 1/23/12, which 
generated this complaint. All communications, including the subsequent re-inspection (EX 5) done on 
5/21/12 with SAXON, are detailed within the INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS section. 

STATEMENT OF TRACY L. CHRISTIAN. R.Ph. ) 
18169 Woodside Trail 
Jupiter, FL 33458 
0: (561) 691-4991 

On 3/21/12, CHRISTIAN provided a written statement (EX 6). On 4/18/12 and subsequent dates, 
she spoke with this investigator, and details of the re-inspection are in the INVESTIGATIVE 
DETAILS section; in a combination of all communications, she essentially stated: 

• She is the PDM and President at PREMIER COMPOUNDING PHARMACY, INC since it 
opened in 2008. 

• She admitted "some blank spaces" had been found on "some DEA 222 forms" as noted by 
SAXON during the inspection. CHRISTIAN indicated the pharmacists at Premier "are more 
comfortable ordering Control II substances online, therefore they are unfamiliar with the 
manual/hard copy form". 

• She denied Premier is not signing in and out received Fentanyl. CHRISTIAN indicated 
there are DEA 222 forms receiving (EX 6) Schedule II and Ills and other DEA 222s 
showing Schedule II and Ills leaving Premier, She submitted copies of forms involving 
North County Surgi-Center. 

Investigator's notes: Copies submitted by CHRISTIAN (EX 6) are not identical to those 
submitted by SAXON (EX 4). 

• She denied Premier is not recording the re-packaging procedure. She indicated Premier 
has formula worksheets for each compounding manipulation performed which outlines the 
process for each item. Examples are in (EX 6). 

• CHRISTIAN disagrees that there are no records of traceability at the facility. 

• CHRISTIAN indicated in her written response dated 3/21/12 (EX 6) that the expired 
medications found in the pharmacy's sterile compounding area are not expired, but are 
labeled as such due to a computer issue and corrections are made manually. This will be 
corrected within two weeks of the response when a new computer and server are installed. 

Page 6 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE -r CASE rJMBER: 2012 -02690 

The re-inspection (EX 5) done on 5/21/12 showed evidence that expired medications and 
compounds are still in active stock. 

o CHRISTIAN denied PREMIER is working out of scope of a community pharmacy without a 

wholesaler license. CHRISTIAN indicated that according to Rule 64B16-28.450 she is filling 
prescriptions under centralized prescription rules and not acting as a wholesaler. Samples 
of orders were obtained during the re-inspection (EX 5). 

Page7 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html




 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETmOr4ER, 

CASE NO 201246677 

CODY FAY BALLANCE, R.Ph., t 
/ 

SEFFLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, Cody Fay Ballance, R.Ph., 

was a licensed pharmacist in the state of Florida, having been issued 

license number PS 46832. 

2. Respondent's mailing address of record is 100 Fourth Avenue 

South, # 228, Saint Petersburg, Florida 33701. 

OCH v. Cody Fay R.Ph 
Case No.: 201216677 



2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, flied 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department 

2. Respondent admits that the allegalions in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

1. Appearance- Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00). The fine shall be paid by 

Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance Management 

Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, Florida 32314- 

OCR v. Cody Fay R.Ph. 
Case No.: 7012-16677 

2 



6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order approving and 

incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final Order) is filed with the 

Department Clerk. Payment must be made . cashier's check or 

money order . PersonS Checks shall NOT be 

3. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed TWO THOUSAND TWELVE 

DOLLARS and SIXTYTWO CENTS ($2,012.62). Total costs shall be 

assessed when the Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board. The 

costs shall be paid by Respondent to the Department of Health, 

Compliance Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the 

Final Order is filed with the Department Clerk. Payment must be made 

by cashier's check or money order . Personal Checks shall NOT 

be accepted. 

4. CE - Respondent shall successfully complete a 

Continuing Education Course on the subject of Quality Related Events 

(QRE) consisting of eight (8) hours of credit, which has approved by the 

Florida Board of Pharmacy, within one (1) year of the filing of a Final Order 

DCH v. Cody Fay Ballance, R.Pti. 
Case ND.: 2012-16677 



accepting and incorporating this Settlement Agreement. These continuing 

education hours shalt be in addition to the hours required for license 

renewaL Within ten (10) days of completion of the course and/or receipt of 

the certificate of comp'etion, Respondent shall mail a copy of the 

continuing education certificate of completion to the Pharmacy Comphance 

Officer at the address listed in paragraph two (2) above. 

5. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499, or 893, florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

6. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

7. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

DOH v. Cody Pay aaflance, R.PI1. 

Case No.: 2012466?) A 



8. Purpose of Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement . Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stiputated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

9. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

DORy. Cody Fay BaIWICe, R.Pti. 
Case 2012-16677 5 



Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

11. Waiver of - Respondent rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

12. Current - Respondent shall keep current his 

mailing address and his practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this 

matter. 

OCH v. Cody Fay BaI)ance, R.PtI. 
Case No.: 2012-16677 6 



SIGNED this / day of , 2013. 

r. 11/ / 
/ 

Cody Fay . 
CASE NO. 2012-16677 

STATE OF______________ 

COUN1YOF 

Before me personally appeared Cody Fay Ballance, R.Ph., whose identity is 

known to me or by rIS" — (type of 
identification), and who, tinder oath, acknowledges that his signathre 
appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this I tQ day of 

____________. 

2013. 

Notary ublic 
My Commission Expires: 

I 

Notary Public - State of Florida 
• -E My Comm. ExpIres Oct 30. 2015 

Commission # EE 134978 
Bonded gh National Notary . 

l v. Cody Fay Ballance, RMi. 
Case N&: 2012-16677 7 



APPROVED thisa�!day of , 

John 1 Armstrong, MD, FACS 

Surgeon General & Secretary 
Florida Department of Health 

Mary Mill 
Assistant ral Counsel 
Florida Department of Health 
Florida Bar Number 0780420 
4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: 850.245.4640 
Fax: 850.245.4683 
E-Mail: mary....milter2@doh.state.fl.us 

l v. Cody Fay Ballartce. R.PI-I. 

Case No.: 2012-16677 8 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTM&IT OF HEALTH, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16677 

CODY FAY BALLANCE, R.Ph., t 
______________________________________________I 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Cody Fay Balance, R.Ph., and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed pharmacist within the State of Florida, having been issued litense 

number PS 46832. 





WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

_______ 

day of , 2013. 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

MARY S. MILLth 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0780420 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 

rn rn Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444, ext. 8104 

DEPARTMENT OFHEALTh Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: Mary_Miller2©doh.state.fI.us 

DATE -o? - 

PCP: ZDL3 

PCP Me¼lnbers: sc.tt. # flyuCA/bS 

DON v. Cody Fay BaUance. R.Ph. 3 
Case No. 201.2-16677 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted 
• an accordance with Section 120369 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to 

be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to 
present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses 
and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or 
her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may indude attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DOH v. Cody Fay R.Ph. 
4 Case No. 2012-16677 



Rick Scott 
Mission: - Governor 

To protect promote & improve the health I 

of all people in through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforis. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naflon 

August 26, 2013 

Michael Schwartz, Esquire 
410 North Gadsden Street 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

Re: DOH vs. Cody Fay 1 R.Ph. 
DOH Case Number; 2012-16677 

Dear Mr. Schwartz: 

I am in receipt of the settlement agreement executed by your client on July 16, 2013, 

concerning the above referenced case. 

Our office is now making preparation for this settlement to be presented at the next regularly 

scheduled meeting of the Florida Board of Pharmacy. Please be advised your case will be set at the 

convenience of the Department and/or the Board and you will be notified of the date and time 

approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please 

feel free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

S. Iler 
Assistant General Counsel 

MM/ab 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldaaHoaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel' Prosecution Seivices Unit TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald cypress Way, Bin C-85 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FAOEBOOK:FLDeparttentofliealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row — Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 650/245-4444 'FAX 8501245-4683 



ELECTION OF RIGHTS 

DON v. Cody Fay Balance, RPh. Case No. 2012-16677 

PLEASE SELECT ONLY 1 OF THE 3 OPTiONS 

An Exptanabofl of Rights is attached. If you do not understand these please COnSI with your attorney or the 

attorney for the Preseastion Services Unit at the address/phone number listed at the bottrmi of this Sm. 

OPTION I. ..E1I. do not dispute the allegations of tact üi the AdminIstrative Complaint, but do wish to be accotded a hearing, 

pursuant to Section 120.57(2) Florida Statutes at which lime I will be permttted to submit oral and/or written evidence in mitigation of 

the complaint to the Board. - 

OPTION 2. 

_____ 

do not dispute the auagatioas of tad contained i the MmiStmthie Complaint and waive my right to object 

or to be heard. I request that the Board enter a final order pursuant to Section 120.5?, Florida Statutes. 

OPTIONS.______ I do dispute the aftegatlons of fact contahted in the Administrative Complaint end request this to be considered 

a petition for formal hearing, pursuant to Sections 120.569{2)(a) and i20.57(1), Florida Statutes, Defame an Administrative Law Judge 

appointed by the Division ci Administrative Hearings. I specifically dispute the followIng paragraphs of the Administrative 
Complaint 

In addition to the above selection. I also elect the : 
I accept the terms of the Settlement Agreement, have signed and am returning the Settlement Agreement or I 

am interested in settling this case. 

I do nct wish to continue pradicin9, have signed and returned the voluntary relinquishment of licensure form, ft 

It has been provided. 

Regardless of which option I have selected. I understand that I Wilt be given notice of time, date, and place 
when this matter is to be considered by the Board for Final Action. Mediation under Sedion 12O.573,florida 
Statutes Is not available in this matter. (Please sign and coguplele all the irijormation / 

v— — 
RespondenP M" / 

Address: — 

Lic.No. . - 

Phone No. 

__________________________ 

Fax No. 

________________________________ 

STATE OP FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF Pcn Q 

Before me, personally appeared identity is known to me orby 

F CS..CrCtZ r J) ! of identification) and , acknowledges that hlsiher signature 

appears above. Svjom to or affirmed by Aft iant before me this (¼() day at 2013. 

k 
Nota ublio-Stateo F ride Mycorrnissian 

Type or Print Name 
r' 

PLEASE MAIL AND/OR FAX COMPLETED FORM TO: Mazy S. Miller, Assistant General Counsels DOll, Prosecution tttrfl 
Unit, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65, Tallahassee. Florida 32399-3265. Telephone (850) 245-4640; FAX (850) 24 
4683; iDO 1.800-955-8771. 

C) 
I 

MICHELLE A. COLEMAN 

Notary Public- State of Florida 

4 My Comm. Expires Oct 30. 2015 

Commission # EE 134978 

8onded Through National Notary . 



Time Tracking System Page 1 of 1 

Complaint/CaseNumber: 201216677 MAIN HELP 

Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201216677 

Subject's Name: BALLANC1E. CODY FAY 

I 

***** Cost to Date ***** _ Hours Costs : 11 $126.28] 

Investigation: 1 $556.62] 

Legal: 
] 3.1011 

iance: ' so.oo] 

I 

********** 

ISub Total: 14.10 $1,012.62] 

lExpenses to Date: 0I 
Irrior Amount: j l Costs to Date: 1 

OTIMETRAKITIMEMASTER.ASP 8/21/2013 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Cody Fay Ballance, R.Ph. (MSM) 
Case Number: 2012-16677 

MEMBERS: /tiscin 

DATE OF PCP: June 20, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-16 

This matter came before the ProbabLe Cause Panel on the above , Having reviewed the complete 

investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 

being otherwise ftilly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 
a •aaa Ill I a a a a a a a a ass ala ala.. a a ala.. • • a a a a a a a a ass, a a a a a ala asa a a u I 

_JL. Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 

statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.016(1)(g), Florida Statutes (2012); 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

____ 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

____ 

requires expert review 

____ 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

B 

) 

and Date 



FEB-8-2013 10:31A FROM:MICHAF' I SCHWARTZ L . SCHWARTZ 

TO: 17275521157501 P.1 

Mr. Ron Dilworth 
Investigative Services — DOH 
525 Mirror Lake Drive North 
Suite 310A 
St. Petersburg, FL. 33701 

Aftorney at Law 
410 N. Gadsden Street 

Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Phone: (850) 224-1088 

Fax: (850) 224-0085 

ary 8, 2013 

VIA FAX ONLY — 7271552-1157 

Re: Cody Balance — Case No. 2012-16677 (Companion to 201 2-17685 

Dear Mr. Dilworth: 

Please be advised that above-noted case has just been referred to me by Walgreens for 
representation. As such, please consider this as the response to the Initial complaint letter 
dated December 7, 2012, as well as my notice of appearance as counsel. Further, all requests 
for information should be submitted through my . 
Further, pursuant to Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, lam requesting copies of the 
completed investigative files. After receipt and review of the requested information, a 

determination will be made (within 20 days of receipt of the investigative file) as to the filing of 
any additional response prior to the matter going to the Probable Cause Panel for consideration. 

Another notice of appearance should be filed in a companion case once Waigreens refers the 
case to me. In the meantime, should you have any questions regarding this matter, please 
feel free to contact me. 

Si nce rely, 

Michael I. Schwau 

Cc: Thomas Isbon, lgreens 
Patty Zagami, lgreens 
Cody Balance, RPH 

— 

, 



7196 900ô 9111 

TO: 
456 CA 
Cassandra/Miller 
Date Mailed 4/5/2013 
2012-16677 

SENDER: : 
Ballance, Cody 

PS Form 3800, JaflhJaTY 2005 

RETURN Postage 

Certified Fee 

Receipt Fee 

Restricted Delivery 

Total Postage & Fees 

USPS' POSTMARK OR DATE 

Receipt for 
Certified m 
No lnsumnce Coverage Provided 

Do Net Use let lnlndetS 

3. Service Type CERTIFIED MAILTM 

4. RestrIcted Delivery? (Extra Fee) El Yes 

1. Article Addressed to: 

Michael Schwartz, Esquire 
410 N. Gadsden Street 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

456 CA 2012-16677 

PS Form 3611, January 2005 Domestic Return Receipt 

i 
7196 9008 9111 882L 4705 

Reference Informatimt 
— 



Rick Scott 
Mission; 

Governor 
To protect promote & improve the health 

____________ 

of all people in Florida through integrated idä John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

April 5, 2013 Certified 
7196 9008 &QCb '4705 

SENDERS RECORD 

Re: Complaint No. 2012-16677 
Respondent: Cody Fay Ballance, R.Ph. 

Dear Mr. Schwartz: 

Pursuant to section 466.073(10), Florida Statutes, you 
investigative file prior to the submission of this matter 
456.073(10), Florida Statutes, provides in part: 

requested a copy of the Department's 
to the probable cause panel. Section 

The complaint and all information obtained pursuant to the investigation by the 
department are confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) until 10 days after 
probable cause has been found to exist by the probable cause panel or by the 
department, or until the regulated professional or subject of the investigation 
waives his or her privilege of confidentiality, whichever occurs first. Upon 
completion of the investigation and a recommendation by the department to find 
probable cause, and pursuant to a written request by the subject or the subject's 
attorney, the department shall provide the subject an opportunity to inspect the 
investigative file or, at the subject's expense, forward to the subject a copy of the 
investigative file. Notwithstanding s. 456.057, the subject may inspect or receive a 
copy of any expert witness report or patient record connected with the 
investigation if the subject agrees in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any 
information received under this subsection until 10 days after probable use is 
found and to maintain the confidentiality of patient records pursuant to s. 456.057. 

Acknowledgement of and Agreement to Maintain Patient 
return the enclosed form to my office as soon as possible. 

Upon receipt of this form, and a determination by the Department to recommend that an 
Administrative Complaint be filed, a copy of the investigative file, including any expert witness 
report or patient record, will be forwarded to you for review. Our office will not make duplicates 
of any x-rays contained within the investigative file unless specifically requested to do so. You 
will have twenty (20) days from the date of mailing to file your response with the Department, 
unless an extension is granted by the attorney handling this matter. 

However, please note that the Department is only required to provide a copy of the investigative 
file after the investigation has been completed and only if the Department is recommending an 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDeparflentofrlealth 
VOUTUBE: fldoh 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel ' Prosecution Services Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row— SuIte 105 

PHONE: 85012454444 'FAX 8501245-4683 

Attached for your review is an 
Confidentiality. Please sign and 
The signed confidentiality agreement will be placed in our file. 

Michael Schwartz, Esquire 
410 N. Gadsden Street 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 



DOH vs. Ballance 
Case Number 2012-16677 
Page 2 

Administrative Complaint. A copy of the file will not be provided if the Department recommends 
closure of the complaint. 

If you have any questions, please give me a call at (850) 245-4444 ext. 8104. 

Respectfully, 

Mary S. Mill r 
Assistant Gen al Counsel 

MSM/cmn 

Enclosure: Confidentiality Agreement 



DOH vs. Ballance 
Case Number 2012-1 6677 
Page 3 

of and 
Agreement to Maintain Patient Confidentiality 

I, 

______________________________, 

am the Subject of an investigation by the 

Department of Health. As the Subject of such an investigation, I am entitled to inspect or 

receive a copy of the investigative report, including any expert witness report or patient 

records connected with the investigation pursuant to Section 456.073(10), Florida 

Statutes, if I agree in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any information received 

under this provision, until 10 days after probable cause is found and to maintain the 

confidentiality of patient records pursuant to Section 456.057, Florida Statutes. 

I understand the cost associated with duplicating x-rays and I want ( ) do not want 

()to receive a copy of any x-rays that are contained within the investigative file. 

SIGNED this 

____ 

day of 

_____________________ 

2013 on behalf of Cody Fay 

Ballance, R.Ph. 

Michael Schwartz, Esquire 



DOH vs. Ballance 
Case Number 201 2-16677 
Page 3 

Acknowledgement of and 
Agreement to Maintain Patient Confidentiality 

4] 1 -it l dCflaJatT2'— 
, fri the Subject of an investigation by the 

Department of Health. As the Subject of such an investigation, I am entitled to inspect or 

receive a copy of the investigative report, including any expert witness report or patient 

records connected with the investigation pursuant to Section 456.073(10), Florida 

Statutes, if I agree in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any information received 

under this provision, until 10 days after probable cause is found and to maintain the 

confidentiality of patient records pursuant to Section 456.057, Florida Statutes. 

I understand the cost associated with duplicating x-rays and I want ( ) do not want 

()to receive a copy of any x-rays that are contained within the investigative file. 

St 
SIGNED this 1 Thay of 

Ballance, R.Ph. 

2013 on behalf of Cody Fay 

Michael Schwa. 



Rick Scott : Governor 

To protect prornote & improve the health 

of all people in Flodda through integrated l otidä John H. Armstrong, , FACS 
state, & efforts. 

HEAL]1—I 
State Sumeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the 

April 19, 2013 
Certified Article Number 

7196 9006 9111 8827 2731 

SENDERS 'RECORD 

Re: Complaint No. 2012-16677 
Respondent: Cody Pay Balance, R.Ph. 

Dear Mr. Schwartz: 

Pursuant to section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, enclosed is a copy of the Department's complete 

investigative file in this , Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes provides in part: 

Upon completion of the investigation and a recommendation by the department to 

find probable cause, and pursuant to a written request by the subject or the subject's 
attorney, the department shall provide the subject an opportunity to inspect the 

investigative file or, at the subject's expense, forward to the subject a copy of the 

investigative file. Notwithstanding s. 456.057, the subject may inspect or receive a copy 

of any expert witness report or patient record connected with the investigation if the 

subject agrees in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any information received under 

this subsection until 10 days after probable cause is found and to maintain the 

confidentiality of patient records pursuant to s. 456.057. The subject may file a written 

response to the information contained in the investigative file. Such response must be 

filed within 20 days of mailing by the department, unless an extension of time has been 

granted by the department.... 

Also enclosed is an invoice for copying charges. Please send a copy of the invoice, along with payment, 

to the Department of Health, Finance and Accounting, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, B-01. 

Finally, when opening your disc you will be prompted to enter a password. The password to be entered 

www.FlorldasHealth.com 
I WITTE R : H esithy F LA 

FACEBO 0K Oe pa trentof H ea Ith 

YOUItJBE: fldoh 

;wPlorida Dopartment of Health 
of theGeneral Counsel . Prosecution Service&Unit 

:1:4052 Way, Bin • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 8501245-4683 

is: 456. 

Michael Schwartz, Esquire 
410 N. Gadsden Street 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 



If you have any questions, please call me at (850) 245-4444 extension 8104. 

illy, 
Mary S. 

Assistant General Counsel 

MSM/cmn 

Enclosures: Invoice # MQPRI3-561 
Investigative File #2012-16677 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Date of Case: Case Number: 
St. Petersburg 11/30/2012 PS2012-16677 
Subject: 
CODY FAY BALLANCE, R.PH. TH 1H Ave 5, #228 
St. Petersburg, FL 33701 
(219)671-1180 

Source: 
R.M. (Patient's Husband) 

. 

License No. 
Prefix: 

45832 
Profession: Board: Report Date: 

PS Pharmacist Pharmacy 02/08/2013 

Period of Investigation: Type of Report: 
12/07/2012 — 02/08/2013 FINAL 

Alleged Violation: F.S. 456.072(1)(dd), 465.016(g)(r)(t); F.A.C 64B16-30.001(2)(g): violating any provision of 
this chapter, the applicable practice act, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto, furnishing upon 
prescription, an ingredient or article different in any manner from the ingredient or article prescribed, 
dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, including any controlled substance, other than in the course of 
the professional practice of pharmacy, violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any 
rules adopted pursuant thereto, failing to consult with the prescribing physician or the . 
Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a complaint and attachments (Exh. 1) from RM, 
which alleges that on 10(29/2012, at WALGREENS PHARMACY (PH11527), located at 337 th Ave., St 
Petersburg, FL 33706, a misfill occurred when fourteen capsules of 100mg Gabapentin were dispensed to 
MM, a 78 b female, instead of the prescribed fourteen capsules of 100mg Nitrofurantoin. BALANCE was 
identified as the dispensing pharmacist. 

A notification letter dated 12/07/2012 (EXH. 2) was provided to BALL.ANCE with a copy of the Case Summary 
and attachments at her listed address. 

MM was notified by letter on 12/08/2012 (EXH. 3). 

Subject is represented by Attorney MICHAEL SCHWARTZ, 850/584-1058, 410 N. Gadsden St. 32301. 
ATTORNEY requested a copy of the final investigative file (EXH. 4) 

SCHWARTZ has indicated that a response will be provided within 20 days of receipt of this investigative . 
Related Cases: 52012-17685 ( 

___________________________________________ 

Approved /Date: 4 
Matthew Knispel, Investi ation Supe is r (P1-39) 

Distribution: 
, 

MQA/FORM 300 1095 Page I 

lnvestigatoi 

Ron Ddworth, II, i 



DOH INVESTIGATJVE REPORT CASE NUMBER PS2012-16677 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page # 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS: 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 

Interviews/Statements 

R.M., Patient's Husband — (Witness) 4 
M.M., Patient — (Witness) 4 
MICHAEL SCHWARTZ, Atty on-behalf-of BALLANCE, (Subject) (EXH. 4) 4 

IV. EXHIBITS 

* 
1. Case Summary and Attachments 5-16 

• 2. Subject Notification Letter dated 12/07/12 17-29 
* 3. Status 30 Letter mailed 12/08/12 30 

4. Letter of legal representation 31 
* 5. Subpoena for Medical Records from Palms of Pasadena Hospital 32-35 
* 6 Medical Records from Palms of Pasadena Hospital 36-96 
* 7. Documents obtained from WALGREEN COMPANY 97-101 
* 8. Confidential Index 102 

* CONTAINS INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE SEALED PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 456.057(1O)(A) FLQRIDA STATUTES. 

HOSPITAL RECORDS — THESE RECORDS ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(1o)(A) 
FLORIDA STATUTES AND NO COPIES ARE RETAINED IN THE AREA 5 INVESTIGATIVE OFFICE. 

MQAJFORM 300 1095 Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER PS2012-16677 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit I is a copy of the Case Summary and Attachments. Included in those documents was a written 
statement from the source and emergency department discharge form. 

In the statement, R.M. wrote that M.M. was dispensed Gabapentin, which is used an anti-seizure 
medication. MM. later realized that she was prescribed Nitrofurantoin, which is given to treat urinary tract 
infections. 

The discharge form from PALMS OFPASADENA HOSPITAL, dated 10/28/2012, indicated that M.M. 
was diagnosed with a urinary tract infection (UTI). The emergency room physician prescribed 100mg 
Nitrofurantoin tablets. 

Exhibit 5 is a subpoena, dated 12/11/2012, for the patient records of M.M., from Palms of Pasadena 
Hospital, prior to her discharge on 10/28/2012. 

On 01/14/2013, documents requested by subpoena were received (Exh. 6). The record included all 
medical documentation for M.M. while admitted at Palms of Pasadena Hospital on 10/28/2012 to the 
completion of data entry of her emergency room visit on 10/29/2012. 

The record indicated that M.M. arrived in the emergency room on 10/28/20 12 with a chief complaint of 
a upossible bladder infection" (pg. 53). After testing, M.M. was diagnosed with a Urinary Tract Infection (UTI). 
Dr KAIVON MADINI prescribed 'Nitrofurantoin Tablet 100mg" for that diagnosis (pg.73). 

A note in the Emergency Department Visit Record indicated that MM. contacted the hospital and 
informed them that she had received Gabapentin, not Nitrofurantoin, which was filled at Walgreens. The note 
also stated, "PT JUST CALLED BACK AND TOLD ME IT WAS WALGREENS THAT MADE THE ERROR" 
(pg. 87). 

On 01/10/2013, this investigator went to lgreen Company located at 337 Ave., St. Petersburg, 
FL 33706 to gather information pertaining to this complaint (Exh. 7). Information collected included a patient 
profile, the last non-confidential CQI after the incident, staff on duty during the alleged incident, a copy of the 
prescription filled, and number of prescriptions filled. 

The patient profile, of M.M., indicated thatM.M. was dispensed 14 tablets of 100Mg Gabapentin and 14 
tablets of 100Mg Nitrofurantoin on 10/29/2012. The most recent CQI, conducted after the alleged incident, did 
address the issue of misfills (pg. 98). The prescription, initially filled, was clearly typed and stated the following 
Sig: Nitrofurantoin Tablet 100MG 1 tab POBID 7 days #14(fourteen). There were 106 prescriptions filled at 
that location on 10/29/2012. The only personnel in the pharmacy at the time of fill were CODY FAY 
BALLENCE, R.PH. and MYKEL CHANEL THOMAS, R.PT. The Pharmacy Department Manager indicated that 
the original container of medication was discarded. 

Exhibit B contains the Confidential Index. 

MQA/FORM 300 1095 Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER 16677 
1) INFORMATION FROM R.M.. Patient's Husband - Source 

In a face-to-face interview conducted at the complainant's home on 01/07/2013, R.M. gave a 
statement that mirrored his written statement, submitted at the time of complaint (pgs. 7-8). R.M. stated 
that he had nothing more to add. 

2) INTERVIEW OF M.M., Patient - WITNESS 

In a face-to-face interview conducted at the patient's home on 01/0712013, M.M. stated that she 
took one tab of the Gabapentin before reading the information pamphlet attached to the medication. 
After reading the information packet, M.M. discontinued use of the medication and contacted the 
hospital and the pharmacy immediately. 

The dispensing pharmacist was still on duty, and apologized to MM. once he was aware of the 
mistake. M.M. stated that a refund for the medication was given to her, as well as, a $50 gift card to 
lgreens. M.M. gave the Gabapentin back to the pharmacist and received the correct medication at 
that time. 

This investigator asked M.M. if she experienced any adverse side effects or went back to the 
hospital, for exam, as a result of taking the medication. M.M. stated that she did not experience any 
effects from taking the Gabapentin, but she would like to ensure that this does not happen to her or 
anyone else in the future. 

3) INTERVIEW OF MICHAEL SCHWARTZ, PA on behalf of BALLANCE - 
SUBJECT 

On 01/02/201 3, SCHARTZ indicated, via letter, that he will be representing BALLANCE in this 
matter (Exh. 4). SCHWARTZ also stated that he may submit a response to the allegations within 20 
days of receipt of the investigative report. 

MQA/FORM 300 1095 Page 4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201300163 

FLORIDA SOLUTIONS PHARMACY, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: FLORIDA SOLUTIONS PHARMACY 
1057 W 29 STREET 
HIALEAH, FL 33012 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama 
City Beach, FL 32408, (850)-236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m. ;therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

Executive Director 
OF PHARMACY 

! Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 — 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypmss Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 lth 
P1-lONE: (650) 245-4444 . FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Kick Scott 
Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM: Kristal Beharry, Assistant General Counsel 

RE: Settlement Agreement 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Florida Solutions Pharmacy 

DOH Case Number 2013-00163 

DATE: August 2, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 

final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 

information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: Florida Solutions Pharmacy 

Subjects Address of 260 Westward Drive, Suite 101 

Record: Miami Springs, FL 33166 

Enforcement Address: 260 Westward Drive, Suite 101 

Miami Springs, FL 33166 

Subject's License No: 21697 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 14064 

Initial Licensure Date: 12/7/2005 

Board Certification: None 

Required to Appear: Yes 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: None 

Allegation(s): Section 465 1)(c), F.S. (2012) 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: Mesaros & Risch 

June 20, 2013 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department of Health/Investigative Services 

Unit-Miami 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel Prosecuhon Services Unit TWIUER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentotHealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 FAX 850/245-4683 





STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTK 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

CASE 0 2013-00163 

FLORIDA SOLUTIONS PHARMACY, 

RESPONDENT. 

__________________________________________I 

SE11tEMENT AGREEMENT 

'Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, Florida Solutions Pharmacy, 

was a licensed pharmacy in the state of Florida, having been issued license 

number PH 21697. Respondent's mailing address of record is 260 

Westward Drive, Suite 101, Miami Springs, Florida 33166. 



2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department. 

2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

1. - Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of FOUR THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,000). The fine shall be paid 

by Respondent to the Department of Health,. Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, 

DON V. florida Solutions Pharmacy 
Case No.: 2013-00163 2 



Florida 32314-6320, within 120 days from the date the Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final Order) is 

filed with the Department Clerk. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($2,000) Total costs shall be assessed when the Settlement Agreement 

is presented to the Board. The costs shall be paid by Respondent to the 

Department of Health, Compliance Management Unit, Bin C76, 

Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320, within 90 

days from the date the Final Order is filed with the Department Clerk. 

4. - Respondent shall be placed on year of 

probation. During the period of probation, Respondent shall be subject to 

the following terms and conditions: 

a. The Department shall conduct quarterly inspections to 

ensure compliance with the laws and rules at 

Respondent's physical location at Respondent's cost. 

b. The Respondent shall submit a corrective action plan 

aimed at demonstrating compliance with all deficiencies 

DON v. Florida Solutions Pharmacy 
Case No.: 2013-00163 3 



noted within the Administrative Complaint to the Florida 

Board of Pharmacy for approval within ninety (90) days of 

the filing of the Final Order this Settlement 

Agreement. 

c. Respondent shall make a mandatory appearance before 

the Board of Pharmacy during the last three (3) months 

of probation. 

5. Correction of Alleged Deficiencies - At its sole expense, but 

without admitting any specific deficiency or violation, Respondent shall 

immediately, or at least forthwith, correct and address all deficiencies and 

violations listed or alleged in the Administrative Complaint, to the extent 

necessary to comply with Florida law. 

6. Future Conduct - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499, or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

7. Violation of Terms - It is expressly understood that a 

violation of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

DOH v. Florida Solutions Pharmacy 
Case No.: 2013-00163 4 



a violation of an order of the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

8. No Force or Effect until Final Order - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

9. Puroose of Anreement - This Settlement Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

DON v. Florida Solutions Pharmacy 
Case No.: 2013-00163 S 



the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

10. Not Preclude Additional Proceedings - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

11. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and Costs - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

12. Waiver of Procedural Rights - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

13. Current Addresses - Respondent shall keep current his 

mailing address and his practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

DON v. Florida Solutions Pharmacy 
Case No.: 2013-00163 6 



14. Time of the Essence - Time is of the essence in all respects 

concerning this agreement. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Anal Order 

approving and incorpora'dng this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this 

matter. 

SIGNED this 22 day of 
\) 

FLOThbA SOLS PHARMACY 
CASE NO. 2013-00163 

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF 

Before me personally appeared 
meorby F 

\o 
whose identity is known to 

(type of identification), 
and who, under oath, acknowledges signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 22 day of cJu Lu . 2013. 

DOH v. Florida Solutions Pharmacy 
Case No.: 2013-00163 

I 

NStaf9 
My Commission Expires: C-cr2Eri 

7 

2013 

Notary Public State of Florida 
- Elora Sakal j 2 

Expires 15 



APPROVED this of f , 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FAçS 
State Surgeon Genera! and 
Secretary of Health 

Assistant General Counsel 

Counsel for Petitioner 
Kristal Beharry 
Florida Bar No. 0078070 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 
Tel.: (850) 245-4444 
Fax: (850) 245-4683 

DOH V. Florida Solutions Pharmacy 
Case No.: 2013-00163 8 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

CASE NO. 2013-00163 

FLORIDA SOLUTIONS PHARMACY, 

RESPONDENT. 

/ 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, PetitioneG Department of Health ("Department"), by 

and through its undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative 

Complaint before the Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Florida 

Solutions Pharmacy, and in support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

permitted special closed system pharmacy within the state of Florida, 

having been issued permit number PH 21697. 

7 



3. Respondent's address of record is 260 Westward Drive, Suite 

101, Miami Springs, Florida 33166. 

4. On or about January 30, 2013, a Department inspector 

conducted a routine inspection of Respondent at 260 Westward Drive, 

Suite 101, Miami Springs, Florida 33166. 

5. On or about January 30, 2013, the Department inspector noted 

the following deficiencies: 

a. No current reference books and current copy of 

laws and rules in hard copy or in a readily available 

electronic data format as required by Rule 

Florida Administrative Code; 

b. No CQI Policy and Procedures and proof of 

quarterly meetings as required by Rule 16-27.300, 

Florida Administrative Code; 

c. No controlled substance inventory taken on a 

biennial basis and available for inspection as required by 

Section 893.07(1)(a), Florida Statutes; and/or 

d. Appropriate records of returned/unused unit dose 

medicinal drugs were not maintained/avaUable as 

required by Rules 64B16-28.830(2), 64B16-28.118, 

DOH Florida Solutions Pharmacy 2 
Case No. 2013-00163 



Florida Administrative Code, and Section 465.016(1)(l), 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

6. Rule 64B16-28.102, Florida Administrative Code, provides that 

the prescription department of each pharmacy shall have a current 

pharmacy reference compendium or an equivalent thereof sufficient En 

scope to meet the professional practice needs of that pharmacy, and a 

current copy of the laws and rules governing the practice of pharmacy in 

the State of Florida. It is acceptable, in lieu of an actual hard copy, to 

maintain these materials in a readily available electronic data format. 

7. Rule 64616-27.300, Florida Administrative Code, provides that 

each pharmacy shall establish a Continuous Quality Improvement Program 

which shall be described in the pharmacy's policy and procedure manual. 

Rule 64B16-27.300, Florida Administrative Code, also provides that the 

pharmacy's policy and procedure manual shall contain provisions for the 

prescription department manager or the consultant pharmacist of record to 

ensure that the committee conducts a review of Quality Related Events at 

least every three months. 

8. Section 893.07(lXa), Florida Statutes (2012), requires that a 

complete and accurate record of all stocks of controlled substances on 

hand be inventoried on a biennial basis. 

DOH V. Florida Ions Pharmacy 3 
Case No. 2013-00163 



9. Rule 64B16-28.830(2), Florida Administrative Code, provides 

that a special closed system pharmacy shall be under the supervision of a 

prescription department manager who is responsible for maintaining all 

drug records and following other rules as relate to the practice of 

pharmacy. 

10. Rule 64B16-28.118, Florida Administrative Code, provides that 

all pharmacies utflizing unit dose or customized patient medication 

packages shall address specific policies and procedures regarding their 

preparation and use in their Policy and Procedures Manual. 

11. Section 465.016(1)(l); Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

each pharmacist shall maintain appropriate records for any unused or 

returned medicinal drugs. 

12. Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 

permittee, if the permittee, or any affiliated person, partner, officer, 

director, or agent of the permittee, violates any of the requirements of 

Chapter 465, Florida Statutes, Chapter 893, Florida Statutes, or any of the 

rules of the Board of Pharmacy. 

DOH v. Florida Solutions Pharmacy 4 

Case No. 2013-00163 



13. As set forth above in paragraph 5, on or about January 30, 

2013, Respondent, or any affiliated person, partner, officer, director, or 

agent of Respondent, violated multiple rules of the Board of Pharmacy, 

requirements of Chapter 893, Florida Statutes (2012), and/or Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

14. Based on the foregoing, Respondent, or any affiliated person, 

partner, officer, director, or agent of Respondent, has violated Section 

465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rules 64B16-28.102, 

-27.300, .830(2), and 64B16-28.118, Florida Administrative 

Code, and/or Sections 893.07(1)(a), and 465.016(1)0), Florida Statutes 

(2012), during an inspection. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or sUspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

DOH V. Florkia Solutions Pharmacy 
. 

Case No. 2013-00163 



SIGNED this day of 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry U 
Assistant General Counsel 
Ha. Bar No. 0078070 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4640 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

PCP: 06/20/is 
PCP Members: 

+ 

FLED 
DEPARTMEtjr OF HEALTH K. 

DOH V. Etorida Solutions Pharmacy 6 

Case No. 20t3-00163 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted 
in accordance with Section 120369 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to 
be represented by counsel or other quallhted representative, to 
present evidence and argument, to l and witnesses 
and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or 
her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), florida Statutes, the Board shaH 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DON v. Florida Solutions PliarTlIaCy 7 

Case No. 20t3-00163 



Rick Scott 
— 

To ptotect, promote & improve The health 

______________ 

Mission: - I 
Governor 

of all people In Fiorida through integrated 
I John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS state, & community efforts. 

I 

State Surpeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Heaithiest State in the Nadon 

August 271 2013 

Florida Solutions Pharmacy 
260 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 

Re: DOH vs. Florida Solutions Pharmacy 
DOH Case Number: 2013-00163 

Dear Mr. Delgado: 

I am in receipt of the settlement agreement executed by you on July 23, 2013 concerning the above 
referenced case. 

Our office is now making preparation for this settlement to be presented at the next meeting of the 
Florida Board of Nursing, scheduled for October 9, 2013, at the Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan 
Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408. You will receive official notification from the Florida 
Board of Nursing of the date and time your case is set for hearing approximately two weeks prior to the 
meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

KB/cmn 

Fiorida Department of Hnaith 
www.FioridasHeaith.com of the General Counsel • Proseculion Services Unit 

TWITEER:HealthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
FACEBOOK:FLDeparthientofHealm Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

YOUTUBE: fldoh PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 6501245-4683 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Complaint Cost Summary 
Compilaint Number: 201300163 

FLOR IDA SOLUTIONS 
PHARMACY 

Page 1 of 1 

8/2/2013 

Subject's 
Name: 

***** Cost to Date 

( 
Hours Costs 

I 1 $54.90 1 5550.221 

1 
1 $510.51 

o.ooI 

[ ***e******j 

I 
14.401 51,115.63 

Date: 

so.ool 

to Date: 
J 

115.63j 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Florida Solutions Pharmacy (KB) 
Case Number: 2013-00163 

MEMBERS: Gavin shad-an*TVtiEliele Weizer 

DATE OF PCP: June 20, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-13 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 

being otherwise fully advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rules 64B16-28.102, 
64B16-27.300, 64B16-28.830(2), and 64B16-28.118, Florida Administrative Code, 
and/or Section 893.07(1)(a), and 465.016(1)(l), Florida Statutes (2012); 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review ' 
Case needs further investigation 

a) 
b) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

air, Pro CatS Panel Date 
oard of ac 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida thraugh integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201306313 

SCOTT EDWARD KIERENIA, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: SCOTT EDWARD KIERENIA 
2156 TILLMAN AVE 
WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama 
City Beach, FL 32408, (850)-236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m. ; therefore, it is 
imperative that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several 
hours until your case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

xecutive Director 
gOARD OF PHARMACY 

Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance ITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399.3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentotHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX : (850) 245-4791 VOUTUBE: fldoh 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. CASE NO 2013-06313 

SCOTT EDWARD KIERENIA, R.PH., 

RESPONDENT. 

______________I 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes; the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, in lieu of further administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, Scott Edward Kierenia, 

R.Ph., was a licensed pharmacist in the state of Florida, having been issued 

license number PS 47160. Respondent's mailing address of record is 

2156 lman Avenue, Winter Garden, Florida 34787. 

2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

Kierenia, Scott Edward SA 1 



STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that he is subject, to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the , 
2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

1. - Respondent shall be• present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of one thousand dollars ($1000). The fine shall be paid by 

Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance Management 

Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, Florida 32314- 

6320, within thirty (30) days from the date the Final Order approving 

and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final Order) is filed with the 

Department Clerk. 

Kierenia, Scott Edward SA 2 



Pharmacy Compliance Officer at the address listed paragraph two (2) 

above. 

5. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499 or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

6. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an qrder of the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

7. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

8. PurDose of Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

Kierenia, Scott Edward SA 4 



concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presehted to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

9. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

10. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs frOm the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

Kierenia, Scott Edward SA S 



11, Waiver of Procedural - Respohdent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

12, Current - Respondent shall keep current his 

mailing address and his practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this 

matte r. 

STATE OF 

SIGNED this &E day of 

COUNTY OF 
U 

Before me personally appeared 
known to me or by 
identification), and who, under 
appears above. 

RPh, 

oath, acknowledges 

whose identity is 

(type of 
that his signature 

Kierenia, Scott Edward SA 6 

) 

Pn4gust 2013. 

NO. 2013-06313 
:ERENIA, R.PH. 



Sworn to and subscribed before me this Q3 day of oS* , 2013. 

Notary Public 
My Commission EkØires: 

APPROVED this day of 

____________________, 

2013. 

KJ. 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

cLy7P}fln 
J di-Ann V. Joh on 
A sistant Gener Cou sel 

Counsel for Petitioner 
Jodi-Ann V. Johnson 
Florida Bar No. 0073525 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 
Tel.: 850.245.4444 
Fax: 850.245.4683 

/JVJ 

Kierenia, Scott Edward SA 7 

%(ELLY ROBERTSON 

Notary Public. State ot Florida 

EE 190563 

My comm. 
Apr.1B. 20Th 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-06313 

SCOTT EDWARD KIERENIA, R.PHD, 

RESPONDENT. 

____________________________________________I 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NO\A4 Petitioner, Department of Health, by and throvgh its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Scott Edward Kierenia, R.Ph., and 

in support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed pharmacist within the State of Florida, having been issued license 

number PS 47160. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 2156 TilIman Avenue, Winter 

Garden, Florida 34787. 

4. On or about March 29, 2013, a prescription for Cymbaita 30 mg 

was ordered for Patient JO. 

5. On or about March 29, 2013, Respondent dispensed Cymbalta 

60 mg to Patient JO. 

6. Section 465.016(1)(g), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

using in the compounding of a prescription, or furnishing upon 

prescription, an ingredient or article different in any manner from the 

ingredient or article prescribed constitutes grounds for disciplinary action 

by the Board of Pharmacy. 

7. Respondent furnished upon prescription an ingredient or artide 

different from the ingredient or article prescribed by furnishing Cymbalta 

60 mg for Patient JO instead of the prescribed Cymbalta 30 mg. 

8. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

465.016(1)(g), Florida Statutes (2012), by furnishing upon prescription an 

ingredient or article different in any manner from the ingredient or article 

prescribed. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

DOll V. Scott Edward Kierenia, R.Ph. 
2 Case No. 



permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this day of 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK ngelSanters 
DATE JUL 3 

/JVJ 

7 V. Johnso' 
$sistant General oun el 

Bar No. 00735 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4-444 
FacsImile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: JodkAnn_Johnson@doh.state.fl.us 

PCP: July 30, 2013 
PCP Members: Meshad and Weizer 

OCH v. Scott Edward KierenEa, LPh, 
Case No. 2013-063 13 

3 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted 
in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to 
be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to 
present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses 
and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or 
her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this mater. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DUEl v. Scott Edward IQerenja, R.Ph. 4 
Case No. 2013-06313 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, ceunty & effoils. 

August 29, 2013 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FAtS 
State Surgeon General & Seattary 

VIA US MAIL 

Scott Edward Kierenia, R.Ph. 
2156 Tillman Avenue 
Winter Garden, Florida 34787 

Re: DOH vs. Scott Edward Kierenia, R.Ph. 
DON Case Number: 2013-06313 

Dear Mr. Kierenia: 

I am in receipt of the Settlement Agreement executed by you on August 23, 2013 concerning 
the above referenced case. 

Our office is now making preparation for this settlement to be presented at the next meeting of 

the Florida Board of Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9, 2013, at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408. Please be advised your 
case will be set at the convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy 
and you will be notified of the date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank you for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, 
please feet free to contact this office. 

JAVJ/pb 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel ProsecuVon Services Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0.65• Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2565 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE:850/245-4444' FAX 850/245-4683 

www.FlorldasHealth.com 
TWIUER:hIealthyFLA lealth 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 

HEALTh 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

Sincerely, 

General 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201306313 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: KTERENIA, T EDWARD 

P ***** Cost to Date ***** _ Hours Costs 

Complaint: $49.41 

Investigation: 1 1 
1 

1 
I 1 

lExpenses to Date: so.ooI 

IPrior Amount: se.ool 

ITotal Costs to Date: 
] 81 

,us/IRMOOTIMETRAKICSDETL.ASP 8/28/2013 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Scoff Edward Kierenia, RPh. 
Case Number: 2013-06313 

MEMBERS: Michele Weizer, PharmD and Gavin Meshad 

DATE OF PtP: 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-15 •••••••••••••• • • 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise filly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and mles, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.016(1)(g), Florida Statutes (2012); 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

cthair, Probable C&use Panel Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon Genemi & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF 
BOARD OF 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201303899 

MONIKA MARIE GIRGIS, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTI CE 

TO: MONIKA MARIE GIRGIS 
165 BLUFF VIEW DRIVE 
BELLEAIR BLUFFS, FL 33770 

AND: ALLEN GROSSMAN 
2022-2 RAYMOND DIEHL ROAD 
GROSSMAN, FURLOW, & BAYO', L.L.C. 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32308 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing wilt be before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respqndent is required to be present at this 

meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama 

City Beach, FL 32408, (850)-236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: ettlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be beard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginhing at 9:00a.m. ;therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 

case is heard. 
CERTIFICATE OF SEF VICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th d y of September, 2013. 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance 
TWITTER:HeatthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444• FAX: (850) 245-4791 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 



HEALTH Rick Scott 

Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & cornmunfty effort. Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Executive Director 
OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.cOm 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C10 Tallahassee FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDePartfllefltotHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 
YOIJTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
lssIon2 Governor 
To protect, promote & Improve the health 
o1 all people in Florida through integrated John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
state, count' & wiimunfty efforts. 

Surpeon General & Secretary 

To be the Healthiest Stats in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Matthew G. Witters, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Settlement Agreement 
suBJEcr: 

DOLl Case Number 2013-03899 

DATE: August 28, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Monika Marie Girgis, RIPh. 
Subject's Address of 165 Bluff View Drive 
Record: Belleair Bluffs, FL 33770 

Enforcement Address: 165 Bluff View Drive 
Belleair Bluffs, FL 33770 

Subject's License No: 38789 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 29783 

Initial Licensure Date: 6/17/2004 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: Yes 

Current PRN Contract: No 

Florida Department of Health www.FlortdasHeatth.com 
Office of the General Counsel- Pioseazlion Services Unit TWIflER:HeaithyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin C-65 Tallahassee. FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row - Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fidoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



Allegation(s): Count I: Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S. (2011, 2012), by 

violating Section 456.072(1)(m), F.S. (2011, 2012), by 

making deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent representations in 

or related to the practice of a profession or employing a 

trick or scheme in or related to the practice of a profession 

Count II: Section 465.016(1)(e), ES. (2011, 2012), by 

violating 893.013(7)(a)(9), ES. by acquiring or obtaining, 

or attempting to acquire or obtain, possession of a 

controlled substance by misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, 
deception, or subterfuge 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable cause Paneh June 20, 2013 

Mesaros & Risch 

Subject's Attorney: Allen Grossman 
2022-2 Raymond l Road 
Grossman, Furlow, & Bayo', L.L.C. 
Tallahassee, FL 32308 

Complainant/Address: Department Of Health/ISU St. Petersburg 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Election of Rights 

Settlement Agreement 

Exhibit A — Administrative Complaint 

Board Notification Letter 

Defense Documents 

PCP Memorandum 

Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1 thru 11 

INES: 
Count I: From a $10,000 fine and two years probation up to revocation and a $10,000 fine 
and one year suspension. 
Count II: From a $5,000 fine and two years probation up to revocation. 

Florida Depaitnent of Halth ldnHnlth.com 
Office of the Geneial CounselS Services t 1WflTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 weparlmentofilealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: SETtLEMENT AGREEMENT 
This is a two count administrative complaint which alleges that the Respondent admittedly 
created fake prescriptions for a controlled substance and admittedly obtained possession of 
the substance in question. 

Terms of Settlement: 
• Appearance 
• $2,500 Fine 
o Costs limited to $2,500 
o Laws and Rules (12 hours) within one year of Anal Order 
• PRN evaluation within sixty days of Final Order and treatment if necessary. 
• Two years probation. 

Florida Department of Health www.FloddasHeatth.com 
Office of the Genesal Counsel Proseaidon Services Unit 1WFTTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee. FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Mertharits Row - Suite 105 YOU11JBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 FAX 850/245-4684 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT QFHEALTH, 

0 CASE NO. 2013-03899 

MONIKA MARIE GIRGIS, R.Ph., 

RESPONDENT. 

_I 
Stu uLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaints, attached as Composite Exhibit A, in lieu of 

further administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, MONIKA MARIE GIRGIS, 

R.Ph., was a: licensed registered pharmacist in the state of Florida, having 

been issued license number PS 38789. Respondent's mailing address of 

record is 165 Bluff View Drive, Belleair Bluffs, Florida 33770. 

DOM V. Monika Marie Girgis, ltPh. 
Case No. 2013-03899 



STIPULATED LAW 

1, Respondent admits that they are subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department. 

2. Respondent neither admits nor denies the factual allegations 

contained in the Administrative Complaint. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

1. Appearance= Respondent, MONIKA MARIE GIRGIS, R.Ph., 

shall be present when this Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board 

and under oath shall answer all questions asked by the Board concerning 

this case and its disposition. 

2. Fine - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500). The 

fine shall be paid by Respondent to the Department of Health, 

Compliance Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the the 

Final Order approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final 

Order) is filed with the Department Clerk. 

DOH v. Monika Marie Girgis, RPh. 
Case No, 2013-03899 



3. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed TWO THOUSAND FIVE I) DOLLARS ($2, 500) Total costs shall be assessed when the 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board. The costs shall be paid 

by Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, 

Florida 32314-6320, within ninety (90) days from the date the Final 

Order is filed with the Department Clerk. 

4. CONTINUING - Respondent shall successfully 

complete a Continuing Education Course on the subject of LAWS AND 

RULES consisting of 12 hours of credit, which has approved by the Florida 

Board of Pharmacy, within ONE (1) YEAR of the filing of a Final Order 

accepting and incorporating this Settlement Agreement. These continuing 

education hours shall be in addition to the hours required for license 

renewal. Within ten (10) days of completion of the course and/or receipt 

of the certificate of completion, Respondent shall mail a copy of the 

continuing education certificate of completion to the Pharmacy Compliance 

Officer at the address listed in paragraph two (2) above. 

D014 v. Monika Marie Girgis, R.PII. 
case No. 20 13-03899 



5. Evaluation and Respondent shall undergo an 

evaluation facilitated by the Professional Resources Network (PRN) within 

sixty (60) days of the filing of the Final Order accepting and incorporating 

this Settlement Agreement. It the results of the evaluation deem 

treatment appropriate, Respondent shall comply with any and all 

recommendations of the PRN advocacy contract. 

6. - Respondent shall be placed on TWO (2) 

YEARS probation which will run concurrent with any PRN monitoring. 

During the period of probation, Respondent shall be subject to the 

following terms and conditions: 

a. Respondent shall submit written reports to the Compliance 

Officer for the Medical Quality Assurance/Compliance 

Management Unit, Compliance Officer, 4052 Bald Cypress 

Way, Bin C-O1, 32399-3251. These repofts shall include 

Respondents license number, current address, and phone 

number; current name, address, and phone number of each 

pharmacy in which Respondent is employed; the names of 

all pharmacists, pharmacy interns, pharmacy technicians, 

relief pharmacists, and prescription department managers 

DOH v. Monika Marie Girgis, R.Ph. 
case No. 2013-03899 



working with Respondent. These reports shall be submitted 

to the Complianëe Officer every 3 months in a manner as 

directed by the compliance officer; 

b; Respondent shall ensure that her employer submits written 

reports to the Compliance Officer for the, Medical Quality 

Assurance/Compliance Management Unit, Compliance 

Officer, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-O1, 32399-3251. 

These reports shall contain the name, address, license 

number, and phone number of each pharmacy intern, 

pharmacy technician, relief pharmacist, and prescription 

department manager working in the prescription department 

• where Respondent practices, and provide a brief description 

of Respondent's duties, responsibilities, and working 

schedule. These reports shall be submitted to the. 

Compliance Officer every 3 months in a manner as directed 

by the compliance officer; 

c. Respondent shall not function as a prescription department 

manager in any Florida permitted pharmacy during the 

entire term of her probation; 

DOFI v. Monika Marie Girgis, R.Ph. 
Case No. 2013-03899 





action with respect to thiá particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in hon with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 
0 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, itis agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

11. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will riot preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

DOB v. Monika Marie Girgis, R.Ph. 
Case No.2013-03899 



12. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

13. Waiver of Procedural - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

14. Current - Respondent shall keep current her 

mailing address and her practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the•• 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change; 

DOll v. Monika Marie Girgis, R.Ph. 
Case No. 2013-03899 



wl+ER:EFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving arid incorporating this Settlement Agreement jn resolution of this , 
STATE OF Florida } 

COUNTY OF I 
'3 

Before me personally appeared MONIKA MARIE GIRG IS, R.Ph., 

whose identity me or by ' — 

(type of identilication), and who, under oath, abknowledges that her 

signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

DOli v. Monika Marie Girgis, ES. 
Case No. 2013-03899 

MICflAEL ADAMS 

* 
EXPIRES: a, 2014 

StG:Nf U this day of ,2013. 

MO 

Case 20 
IS, R.Ph. 

} 

day of 2013. 

NOtary Public 
My Commission Expires: 



APPROVED this 2b day of 

013. 
John H. Armstrong, MD 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

Matthew c3. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0091245 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile; (850) 245-4683 
Email: matthewwitters©doh.state.frus 

DOH v. Monika Marie Girgis, R.Ph. 
Case No. 2013-03899 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott : I 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
L' 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. I State Sur9eon General & Secxetaq 

August 29, 2013 

VIA US MAIL 

Allen Grossman, Esquire 
2022-2 Raymond l Road 
Grossman, Furlow & Bayo, L.L.C. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

Re: I vs. Monika Marie Girgis, R.Ph. I Case Number: 2013-03899 

Dear Mr. Grossman: 

I am in receipt of the settlement agreement executed by your client on July 12, 2013 concerning 
the above referenced case. 

Our office is now making preparation for this settlement to be presented at the next meeting of 
the Florida Board of Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9, 2013 at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408. Please be advised your 
case will be set at the convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy 
and you will be notified of the date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter, Should you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

Matthew G, Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 

MGW/crl 

Florida Department of Health lth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosewlion Services Unit 

TWflTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C.65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 

FACEBOOK:FLDeparUrentofHealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row— Suite 105 

YOUTUBE: Odoh PHONE: 850/245-4444 'FAX 850/245-466X 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaiiiil Number: 201303899 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: G1R.GIS, MONHCA MARIE 
***** Cost to Date ***** 

Hours Costs 

iaint: .5011 $82.35 

lnvestigat5on: 20.1011 $" 

ILegak 1 $414.81 : 0.05] $1.61 _ _____________ 

ISub Total: 
j 

25.55] 1 
jExpenses to Date: so.ool 

Amount OI 
ITotat Costs to Date: 1 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IRMOOTIMETRAK/CSDETL.ASP 7/29/2013 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Monika Made Girgis, R.Ph. (MGW) 
RE: Case Number: 2013-03899 

s /s'O 

DATE OF PCP: June 20, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-4 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 

investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 

being otherwise frilly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 

statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2011, 2012), by violating Section 

456.072(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2011, 2012); 

Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2011, 2012), by violation of Section 

893.013(7)(a)(9), Florida Statutes; 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review — 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

MEMBERS: 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

13 
Panel Date 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flodda through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, D, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201301123 

ADORYS MARTINEZ FLORES, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: ADORYS MARTINEZ FLORES 
10235 Sw 24 ST C-149 
MIAMI, FL 33165 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama 
City Beach, FL 32408, (850)-236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m. ;therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

$6ard Executive Director 
OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO . Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofl-lealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott : 

Governor 
To protect promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Secretary 

Visio,,r To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Christopher A. Jurich, Assistant General Counsel 4 
RE: Settlement Agreement LO 
SUBJECT: DON v. Adorys Martinez Flores, R.Ph. 

DON Case Number 2013-01123 
DATE: August 28, 2013 

Enclosed you wilt find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Adorys Martinez Flores, R.Ph. 
Subject's Address of 10235 S.W. 24 St C-149 
Record: Miami, FL 33165 

Enforcement Address: 3898 S.W. 133 Place 
Miami, FL 33175 

Subject's License No: 48533 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 37722 
Initial Licensure Date: 11/2/2011 
Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: Yes 

Current .PRN Coniract: No 

Allegation(s): Section 465.016(1)(r), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 
465.016(1)(r), P.S. (2012), by violating Section 465.022(11) 
(a), F.S. (2012), by failing to ensure the permittee's 
compliance with all rules adopted under those chapters as 
they relate to the practice of the profession of pharmacy 
and the sale of prescription drugs. 

Prior Discipline: None 

Florida Department of Health www.Fiorldasijealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel Services Unit TWI1TER:HeaIThyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way! Bin 0-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 FAX 850t245-4684 



Probable Cause Panel: June 20, 2013 

Mesaros & Risch 

Subject's Attorney: Javier Talamo 
7600 W. 20th Avenue, Suite 213 
Hialeah, FL 33016 : Department Of Flealth/ISU Miami 

Materials : Memorandum to the Board 

Settlement Agreement 

Exhibit A — Administrative Complaint 
Board Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 

Cost Summary 

PCP Memorandum 

Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1 thru 7 

CAJ/crl 

GUIDELINES: 
Minimum: $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules Course or MPJE, up to Maximum: Revocation. 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 
This a one count Administrative Complaint which alleges that the Respondent, who was the 

prescription department manager for the pharmacy Permittee, Las Mercedes Drug Store, Inc., 
during two inspections by the Department on January 9, 2013, and February 27, 2013, which 
revealed that the Permittee could not retrieve prescription drug pedigrees for audited 
medications. As the prescription department manager, the Respondent failed to ensure the 
Permittee's compliance with all rules as they relate to the profession of pharmacy. 

Terms of Settlement: - - 

• Appearance 
• $1000 Administrative Fine payable within 30 days 
• Costs limited to $1,263.12 payable within 90 days 
• Continuing education course - 12 hours of Laws and Rules completed within 1 year 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel ProsewUon Seivices Unit lealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 leparthentofHealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Sufte 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PRONE: /2454444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



STATE oF FLORIDA 
bEPARtMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

CASE !IOQ 2013-01123 

RYS MARTINEZ FLÔRES, R.PIL, 

RESPONDENt 

_______________I 

AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, Adorys Martinez Flores, 

R.Ph., was a licensed pharmacist in the state of Florida, having been issued 

license number PS 48533. Respondent's mailing address of record is 

10235 Southwest 24 Street C-149, Miami, florida 33165. 

Deportment of Health v. Martina Rores, RPh. 
No. 2013-01123 

d11 wBt2:tt ST 



2. *ás charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

the Depthrtm eht. of Health rtnient) and •propetly served upon 

with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, ida 
LAW 

1. Respondent admits that she is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

nent 
2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

.1. - Respondent shall be. present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposWon. 

2. The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000). The fine shall be paid by 

Respondent to the of Health, Compliance Management 

Unit, . Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, T&!ahassee, Florida 32314- 
Deparbnent of Health v. Adorys Marunez Flares, R.Ph 

No. 2013-0i123 

SSQC d11 'owejej '8 ZI4tAB.JN WWt211 6102 91 2nw 



r. 

320, within 30 from the date the Order approving and 

incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final Order) is filed with the 

Depa ftment eW. S ts of. h impose the 

administrative With the and prosecution of 

thgs matter in an amount not to exceed oNe THOUSAND TWO 

HUNDRED ixtY THREE DOLLARS AS ... TWELVE CENTS 

($1,263i2). Total thàh Sthèsse d when the Settlement 

Agreement is bdárd. ThE shall be paid by 

Respondent to the Department of eaith, Compliance Management 

Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, Florida 3231.4- 

6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order is filed with the 

Department Clerk. 

4. Course- Respondent shall successfully complete a 

Continuing Education Course on the subject of LAWS AND RULES 

consisting of TWELVE (1.2) HOURS of credtt, which has been approved 

by the Florida Board of Pharmacy, within one (1) year of the filing of a 

Final Order accepting and incorporating this Settlement Agreement. These 

continuing education hours shall be in addition to the. hours required for. 
Department of IISth V. is Martinez Pores, R.Pti. 
Case No. 2013-01123 

d11 Z2tABJN W8t2:tt E102 SI 



Sew&. , ten (10) days of complebon of the course and/or 

the of completiOn, shah mail a copy of the 

édueatiSi certifiSe of completion to the Pharmacy 

Officer at the fisted paragraph two (2) above. 

FutUre - Rapôndtht shall not violate Chapters 4t& 

4e$; 499 or Pbrida Statutes; the iules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

br other state cfr federal law, ru$ej, or regu'ation relating to the praë.tite 

or to Øadke pharmacy. 

6. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement AgreerneAt as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

7. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

8. Puroose of - This Settlement Agreement is 

executed .by Respondent for the purpose of further 
Department of F-tealth v. Morys Martnez Flcre.s, ItPh. 
Case No. 2013-01123 

frC6ILS9SOC i 'OUJBJBj ntAeJy si 



Scdoh With rèsp&t to case; In this regard, Respondent 

atsthori±th the tO rSew md examine D Investigative file materials 

Respondent ptlor th, or in conjunctiob with, consideration of 

the Sétderneht 1 Petitioner and Respóndeñt agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

offer no testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fad or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

9. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will riot preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

of' Health v. Adorys Martinez R.Pfi. 
Case No. 2013-011.23 

BItSSSDE d11 'OtUBjej '8 ZtAeJ)j Wl:Jt211 St 



10. Waiver of Attorney's Fees , Respondent waives 

the right . tà seek any attorney's fees. and costs from the Department in 

connedion with this 4isçiplinary proceeding. - 

11. Waiver of Procedural - Reipondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

12. Current - Respondent shall keep current her 

mailing address and her practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

Depaitmait of Health v. Ariorys M&tinez Mores, ItPh. 
Case No. 2013-01123 

i '$ weta:tI 6102 SI 2n& 



WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

and klcorpbrthting this SewernehtAgrsmeht in resolulioti 

matten 

STATE t OF 

of this 

-, R.Ph., whose identity 

__(type 

identification), and who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature 
appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this I day of 2013 

MY 

lontr . 
riotarycPiiblic V 0 
My Commission Expires: 

Depaitnent of HSth v. klorys Mard nez flores, R.Ph, 

cthe Mo. 

d11 'OWBfej wyta:tt SI 

SIGNED this day of u 2011 

Case NO. 201a-o1123 

Before me personally appeared 
•known to me or by 

Is 
of 



APPROVED thS f . 2011 

Johhtt. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of HeSith 

Christophe( A. : 
Assistant General counsel 

Counsel for Petitioner 
Christopher A. Jurich 
Florida Bar No. 0099014 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 
Tel.: (850) 245-4444 ext. 8174 
Fax: (850) 245-4683 

Department oP Health v. Mcrys Mardr,ez Pates, tPh. 
Case No. 20i3-D1123 

frE6ItSSSOE d11 'OvJEJ2j WEJte:It eioe si 



. 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF 2 2 
CASE NO. 2013-01123 

ADORYS MARTINEZ FLORES, R.Ph., 

RESPONDENT. 

I 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Adorys Martinez Flares, R.Ph., and 

in support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was a licensed pharmacist within the state of Florida, having 

been issued license number PS 48533. 





. . 
pursuant thereto, constitutes grounds for denial of a license or disciplinary 

action. 

8. Section 465.022(11)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), states that 

t]he prescription department manager must ensure the permittee's 

compliance with all rules adopted under those chapters as they relate to 

the practice of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of prescription 

drugs." 

9. As the PDM, Respondent was responsible for ensuring the 

Permittee complied with Rule G1N-1.012(3)(a)2., (d), Florida Administrative 

Code, (formerly Rule 64F-12.012(3)(a)2., (d), F.A.C.), which provides that a 

copy of the pedigree paper must be maintained by each wholesaler 

preparing a pedigree paper and by each recipient. 

10. As noted by the deficiencies set forth above, Respondent fafled 

to ensure the Permittee's compliance with the rules adopted by the Board 

of Pharmacy. 

11. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 465.022(11 )(a), 

Florida Statutes (2012), by failing to ensure the permittee'.g compliance 

Department of Health v. Ado'ys Martinez Ho-es, R.PFI. 
3 Case Number 123 



CHRISTOPFER A. JUF&H 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0099014 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 

____ 

Telephone: (850) 245-4444 ext. 8174 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: christopherjurich©doh.state.fl.us 

/CAJ 
PCP: 15'kr\t 
PCP Members: 

Department of Health v. Adorys Martinez Flores, R.Ph. 

Case Number 2013-0t123 

. 
with alt rules adopted under those chapters as they relate to the practice of 

the profession of pharmacy and the sale of prescription drugs. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this day of 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

- DEPUTY CLERK 

CLERK l sanders 
I)ATE JUN 2 0 

$ 
4 



S 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 
Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

Department of v. Adorys Martinez FIores, R.Ph. 
5 Case Number 2013-01123 



Rick Scott Mission: I I 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flodda Through integrated 

I John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS state, county & community efforts. 

I H EALTH 
I 

State Surgeon General & 

August 29, 2013 

VIA US MAIL 

Javier Talamo, Esq. 
7600 W. th Avenue, Suite #213 

Talamo, Leyton, LLP. - 

Hialeah, Florida 33016 

Re: l v. Adorys Martinez Flores, R.Ph. 
DOH Case Number: 2013-01123 

Dear Mr. Talamo: 

I am in receipt of the settlement agreement executed by your client on August 12, 2013 
concerning the above referenced case. 

Our office is now making preparation for this settlement to be presented at the next meeting of 
the Florida Board of Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9, 2013 at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408. Please be advised your 
case will be set at the convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy 
and you will be notified of the date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter Should you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

Christopher A. Jurich 
Assistant General Counsel l 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHeaith.com 
Office of The General Counsel' Proseailion Services Unit 

TWIUER:HealthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin c6s Tallahassee. FL 32399-3265 
BOOK:FLDepaFtmentoHealth Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row— Suite 105 

YOUTUBE: fldoh PHONE: 850/245.4444 • FM 8501245-466X 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Complaint Cost Summary 
Number: 201301123 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: MARTfNEZ FLORES, ADORYS 

I 
Cost to Date ***** 

I 
Hours Costs 1 $43.92 

lnvestigation: 15.3011 $97t901 l: 1 1 
Compliance: 1 j _ 
ISub Total: 1 1,724.791 

lExpenses to Date: I 
ior Amount: SO.OOI 

Total Costs to Date: 
[ $1,724.791 

OTIMETRAKICSDETL.ASP 8/28/2013 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Adorys Martinez Flores, R.Ph., ) 
Case Number: 2013-01 123 

DATE OF PCP: June 20, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-10 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed 

investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 

being otherwise filly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists arid a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 465.022(11)(a), Florida 

Statutes (2012); 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert rcview 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

— Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

MEMBERS: Gavin 14 1 /&icA 

the complete 

;e Panel 
acy 

Date 

Co , 
— 

); 

-) - 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY - - WWW.DOH.STATE.FL.US 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
Las Mercedes DrUg Store, Inc 

PERMIT NUMBER 
25947 

DATE OF INSPECTION 13 
DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

FL3648663 

STREET ADDRESS TELEPHONE 4 EXT. 
7209 SW Coral Way (786)518-2793 

CITY COUNTY STATEZIP PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LIC ENSE 
MIami 23 33155 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. Adorys Martinez Ilores, PS 48533 

Open 9:OOA 9:OOA 9:OOA 9:OOA 9:OOA Closed Closed 2. 
Close 5:OOP 5:OOP 5:OOP 5;OOP 5:OOP Closed Closed 3. 

SATISFACTORY /A YES 

I Rx deparmient hours open 5 days for4O hours per week. (84816-28.1081, rAG.] 
2 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised. (64B16-27.420. F.A.C.] )( — 

3 Pharmacist on duty when Rx departhent open. (64616-28.109, F.A.C.] — 

4 Properslgnsdisplayed. (465.025(7), F.S.j(64816-28.109(1). 64B16-28.loBl, F.A.C.J(64B16-28.1035, F.A.Cj(64B16-27.1001, P.A.C.] — - 

A verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to the patient orthe patients agent 64816-27.620(1), FAG.] — 

6 Prescription department has convenient slnldninnlng water. 102(1), F.A.C.] 
— : : 

7 Prescription department clean and safe. 64816-28.102(4), F.A.C,] . — 

8 Proper equipment and references as required. (64816-28.1 02(5)(a), 'AC.] — 

9 Medication properly labeled. 465.0255, F.S.] (64616-28.108, FAG.] — 

10 Expired medications removed from the shelves. (84816-28.110, 1 . — 

II COt Policy and Proceduresand quafterlymeetlngs. (766.101, F.S.] 64616-27.300, F.A.C.J — 

12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. (465.022(4), P.S.] — 

13 Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. (893.04(lXc) 6, P.S.] 64816-28.140(3)(b), FAG.] — 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64616-27.800, F.A.C.] 

- >< 

- 

)< 

- K - 

X - 

>< — 

15 All controlled substance prescriptions contain information required. (893.04, F.S.] — )< 

16 Prescriptions for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 
meet the requirements of 458.42(2), F.S.]. 

17 Prescriptions may not befihled in excess of one year or six months for from the date written. (893.04(IXQ), F.S.] (64616-27.211, FAG.] 
18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. t893.o7(lXa), F.S.] — 

19 DEA 222 order forms properly completed. 893.07, F.S.] 
. 

- >( 

- — 

20 Controlled substance records and Ra information in computer system is retrievable. (21CFR 1306.22] (64616-28.140, FAG.] — - K 
21 Contiolled substance records maintained for 4 years. (465.022(12)(b), F.S.] — - K 
22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. ICFR 1306.22(b)(3)] 64B18-28,140(3Xb), F.A.C.I — - K 
23 Pharmacy Is reporting to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescriptions within 24 hours or close of business on next business day of leaming of instance. 

Reports include alt required information, 465.015(3), F,S,] 

— 

— 

— 

— 

24 Record of theft or significant toss of all contjoiled substances is being maintained and is being reported to the sheriff within 24 hours of discovery, 893.07(5), P.S.] (465.015. F.S.] 

25 Pharmacy is reporting to the POMP within 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. (893.055(4), F.S.] 

26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler permit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the h of the following month. 
(499.0121(14), F.S.] 

27 Registered pharmacist property prescribing. (64816-27.210, F.A.C.] 

28 Compounding records properly maintained. (64616-28.140(4), F.A.Cy K - — 

29 Unit dose records properly maintained. (465.016(1Xl). P.S.] 64816-28.118, F.A.C.] . — — 

30 Pedigree records retrievable. (64F-12.012(3Xa)2., (d), F.A.C.J — - — 

31 Preparation time does not exceed 1 hour when preparing, and adminstration begins not later than 1 hour following stall of Immediate use CSPs. (648 16-27.797(1)(j). F.AC.] — - X — 

32 Preparation Is properly labeted if preparer does not administer or witness administration when preparing immediate-use CSPs. 64816-27.797(1)(j), F.A.C.] — . 

- Note: If establishment is engaged in, sterile compounding, a separate inspection form should be completed. 

Remarks: All N/A's do not apply at this time. 
Wholesaler is ANDA. SMITH. and Vertcale Wholesale. 
#10 No expired medication at this time. 
#22 Reviewed daily log for Jan and Feb. 2013. 
#25 Verified pharmacy is reporting to PDMP every seven days by reviewing PDMP report. 
#30 No invoices produced for the purchase of approxImately 3 bottles of Crestor 20mg #90. Approximately 390 were dispensed and only 1 invoice showing 90 were 
purchased during the period of January 1, '2013 until February 27, 2013. Owner advises he might have the invoice at this accountant 

I have read and have had this inspection report and the and regulations concemed herein explained, and do affirm that the information given herein is true and correctØrtti Ireived a copy or 

the Ucensee Bill of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Adorys Martinez flores, P548533 

File 4 

Insp # 

ROUTINE CIWIGE °C New 401' OPtRA1'ING OWNER D I 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

I°LORLDA DEPAXtrMBNT OP ' 
Institutional Representative 
11W 359 Revised 12112, 12/IL 9/Il, /09,5/06,12/02, 12/00 

02-27-2013 
Date 

ID mi200 

igator/Sr. Pharmacist 

_____________________________________ 



• STATE OF FLORIDA 
OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
Las Mercedes Drug Store, Inc 

PERMIT NW 

25947 
MBER DATE OF INSPECTION 

2/27/2013 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT 
CONSULTANT PHARMACIST 

STREET ADDRESS TELEPHON E# EXT. 5W Coral way (786)518-2793 

CITY COUNTY STATE/ZIP LICENSE # 
Miami MIAMI-DADE 33155 — 

101. Pharmacy is compounding nonsterile products. 

103. Pharmacy is compounding sterile products. 

105. Pharmacy is compounding sterile products without a prior NV 797 inspection form. 

106. Pharmacy operates as Internet pharmacy only. lL 
110. Pharmacy is in the same location within a pain management clinic or weight loss clinic. 11 
111. Pharmacy technicians are NOT properly registered. EIIJ 
125. Pharmacy is accepting cash only for pain medication. l 
126. Dispensing practitioner is dispensing controlled drugs. El 
128. Dispensing practitioner is dispensing CII and CIII drugs pursuant to 1.5.465.0276. — , Dispensing practitioner is dispensing at a location not listed as a practice or satellite location in the licensing module of COMPAS. 

130. Inspector has obtained copies of prescriptions or patient profiles from dispensing practitioner or pharmacy. — 

131. None of the above statements apply. 

NOTE 

The purpose of this form is to collect data for internal use 
statewide trends in pharmaCy and dispensing practitioners 
the inspection and inspection form that is provided at the c 

inspector/investigator from notification of any immediate is 
protocol must be followed when any immediate issue is id 

or the ISU ONLY. It will be used at different intervals to assess 
. This form will not be issued to the licensee and is separate from 
ompletion of the site visit. This information does not exclude the 
sues or concerns initiated at the inspection. The appropriate 

entified, to include documentation of same on the inspection form. 

PRINT NAME D. Warshofsky 

1W 373 Revised . 01/07 Replaces 12/02 

ID mi200 

Pharmacy/Dispensing Practitioner Data Collection Form 
File ft RotJrINE NEW CuRNENItY NOT O'MJEP 

Insp ft 

____________ 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY . CHAPTER 465.073, FLORIDA STATUTES AND 64b16-30.002 F.A.C. 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OP 

WWW .DOH STATE. FL. US 

Remarks: 
No Compounding at this Ume. 

igator/Sr. Pharmacist sign here also 

02-27-2013 
Date igator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 



4 

PEN'Z FOSTER - 
CARE ER 

Yanurys Tait F 

Student #: 
. 

Log on at www 



I T 

CAREER SCHOOL 

Libera 

Student# 21755214 

Log on at wwwPennFosteredu 



Pharmacy Technician Diplôñia Penn Foster Career School Page 1 of2 

STUDENT LOGIN Icue A&4JT COPIMCT 

ø%a 

@1-800-275-4410 

Speak with-an lsslona 
Coo naclor 

1-800-275-4410 

2010 Graduate Survey 

94.5% MIjeVOd Gods 

Recommend to a S 
[ 98.6% studies _J 

Today...start 1 
ttmen you enroir with Peon Foster 're 
able to Mart your slides atnosi 
irnnodtalaty. Once you receive your 
canffrrntng email WHII your student ID. 
numbs4 you on, log h,lo the Pant, Foster 
eludent web site and begin your program. 

Get iflOte . contad tue li onlIne and you could be ulrig 
on your first lesson — and toward a nsw r - a-mailer of ridnuteal 

DEGREE PROGRAMS - 

FROM PENN FOSTER COLLEGE (AZ) 

Ca'eer Proura Heetta Pharmacy Program Overview 

Pharmacy Technician 
Program Overview 
You could be a Pharmacy Technician In as Utile an 
one t , at home with Penn Foster Csree 
School and you'll get the support you need while 
learning at your own pace. 

Vault get the treWng you need to work closely will, 
pharmacists In prostdlng medIcatIon arid health care 
products 10 patIents, Whether S work tar a retail 
phinecy, Iota! druggist grocety otose. or hoapilal, you'S 

be an Important pa,tof a rewarding piofeaston. 

Our Pttam,acy TechnIcian mIng progrnm providas you 
the sMIle you need In aucoeed and even offers a 

Ewi . 
Ass Phwneoy Technician, ll need to know medical 
tanalnolcoy. managIng arid updatIng patient records, end 
otftce procedures. The , Foster Career School - 

program can hsp you learn these us and many more 
qulcktjr aid . 

Your courses Include: 

• Receive presculpUona from coot re and hcepttala 
• Prevwe prosotipilais tar patIents. 
• VerIfy h,surssice end ptescilpdon lntomiation. 
• AssIst the pharmacist with everyday dutIes. 

Flexible, Convenient, -PacedI 
There Is 'a going to n, no need toreai,ange 
schedules. You choose the right time and place to 
complete you: cousseworic. And you work at your own 
pets. Theusts no one to rush you or hold you back. 

hMiiIe you/fl worst Iridependenfly. you won't be atone. 
Ezpart and euppost staff— dedicated to 
helping you your co'jresvork — are just a phone call orart email away. 

CertIfIcation EligIbilIty - 

Graduates r the Foster Pharmacy Technician Prodram are atdomallcally le to take the PTCS (Pharmacy Thchnrciaa Certification Bawd) 
You dl aba recelva the Pliannacy ted,nldar, 'Alodcboot and 

CertificatIon Rewaw. This workbook Is the only Phracy Techctclan workbook 
officially endorsed by the AuTlalcel, Pharmacists AssocIatIon CAPhAJ. 

State Requirements 
State boards may kr,poae a variety of dffferant requiremants. These 
isquiremants vary from slate to state. (The ststea of Florida Indiana. Louisiena, 
land, Mthnesole, Nevada North Dakota. South Carokia. Utah. ule, and 
Wherduiglon dl not corralder the mIng recelved hi this program adequate to iii pharmacy technIcian ciedcntleting ments. You should contact the 

Stats Board of Pharmacy to obtain the requirements applIcable to pharmacy 
technIcians In your state.) 

Contact Penn Foster Today. 
aced you htmrwflon - with absobJtety no cbflgalhwu! FInd old more 

eboul Penn Fosle?s Pharmacy Tethntdan training that lnchuda& 

• At the books, lessors, equipment, arid teemIng aids you need 
• Woaktwedanoeopfloa 
• Unimited, toil-free Instructional support 

Access to student sevboss by webalte. phone, and mail 

http://www.pennfoster.edu/pharmacy/ - 

HIGH SCHOOL CAREER PROthEAMS 
DiPLOMA AND CERTIFICATES 

PROGRAM OVERVIEW 

PROGRAM COURSE LIST 

Ct'IREER OUTLOOI( 

TUITION AND FINANCING 

ITATION 

HOW IT - - - 

CAREER SERVICES 

STUDENT CENTER ACCREDiTATION MILITARY 
AND COMMUNITY #10 UCENSING EDUCATION 

Last day! 

ENROLL NOW 

REQUEST INFORNV.TION 

Respected and Accredited - 

earn your Pharmacy Techfldan Carat Diploma from Reglondly end Acaedhthd Penn Foster 
Carat School. Cnr 13 Ilton students hew entailed In our trainIng progiana meltIng nn Foster one ofthe 
worlds largest and most respected distance laerning InstitutIons. 

IOw 
Rnw 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARtMENTOF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
LAS MERCEDES DRUG STORE INC 

PERMIT NUMBER DATE OF INSPECTION 
/2012 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
LAS MERCEDES DRUG STORE INC 

DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

I<AMAR OLAWALE MUSTAPHA STREET ADDRESS 
72095W CORAL WAY 

TELEPHONE # EXT. 
786-704-3382 

CITY COUNTY 
MIAMI 23 

STATE/ZIP 
33155 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE 4 
37331 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED LICENSE 4 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. 

Open lOAM lOAM lOAM lOAM lOAM CLOSED CLOSED 2. 
Close 6 PM 6 PM 6 PM 6 PM 6 PM CLOSED CLOSED 3. 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

I R,x department hours open 5 days o hours perweek. 64816.26.1081, F.A.C.1 : 
2 Pharmacy technicians properly led and supervised. 64616.27.410. F.A.C.] — — 

3 Pharmacist on dutywhen Rx departhient open. 64816-28.109, F.A.C.j — — 

4 Propersigns displayed. 465.025(7), 64B16-28.109(1), F.A.C.] 64B16-28.1081, FAG.] 64816-28.1035, 64B16-27.100l, E.A.C.] — 

5 A verbal and printed offer to counsel 'a made to the patient or the patient's agent. 64B16-27.820(l). F.A.C.] — . - — 

6 Prescripton department has convenient sinl<Injnning water, 64816-28.102(1). F.A.C.] — X — 

7 Prescrlpton department clean and safe. 64616-28.102(4). F.A.C.] — — 

8 Proper equipment and references as required. 64B18-28.102(SXa), FAG.] — — 

9 Medication property labeled. 465.0255, F.S.] 64816-28.108, r.A.C.] — — 

10 Expired medications removed from the shelves. 64616-28.110, F.A.C.) — — 

11 COl Policyand Procedures and quarterly meetings. 766.101. F.S.J 64B16-27.300, F.A.C.] — - - — 

12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure Implemented to prevw.t the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. 465.022(4), F.S.J — >< — 

13 Prescriptions have the date dispensed snd dispensing pharmacists. 893.04(lXc) 6, F.S.] 64B16-28.140(3Xb), F.A.C.] — — 

14 Pharmacy maintains patent profile records. 64816-27.800. F.A.C.] — 

15 All controlled substance prescriptions contain information required. 893.04, F.S.) >< — - — 

16 Prescriptions for controlled substances are on counteifelt-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 
meet the requirements of 456.42(2), F.S.]. 

17 Prescriptions maynot be tilled In excess of one yearor six monthsforcontrolsfrorn the datewritten. F.S.] 64816-27.211. F.A.C.J 

18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. 893.o7(lXa), F.S.) — — 

19 DEA 222 order forms property completed. 893.07, F.S.] — . — 

20 Controlled substance records and Rx infonnation in computer system Is retrievable. 2ICFR 1306.221 64816-28.140, F,A.C.) )( — — 

21 Controlled substance records maintained for 4 years. 465.022(12)(b), F.S.] - - 

22 CertIfied daily log OR printout maintained. (21CFR 1306.22(bX3)] 648t6-28.140(3)(b). F.A.C.I 
. : - 

23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement.any instance of fraudulent prescriptions within 24 hours or close of business on next business day of learning of instance. 
Reports indude all required Information. 485.015(3). F.S.] 

24 Record of theft or significant loss of all controlled substances is being maintained and is being reported to the sherIff within 24 hours of discovery. 893.07(5), F.S.J 465.015. P.S.) 

25 Pharmacy is reporting to the POMP within 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), F.S.] 

26 Phannacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler permit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 
499.0121(14), F.S.] 

27 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. 64616-27.210, ) 
28 CompoundIng records properly maintained. 84816-27.700, F.A.C.] 

29 Unit dose records properly maintained. 465.016(1)0), F.S.) 64616-28.118, F.&C.] 

30 Pedigree records rehievable. 64F-12.012(3Xa)2.. (d), F.A.C.J 

Note: If establishment is engaged in parenteral/enteral compounding, a separate inspection form should be completed. 

Remarks: All N/A responses are due to this being an initial Inspection for this facility to obtain a community pharmacy permit. This inspector has reviewed all that is applicable to this 
inspection and found the facility to be in compliance at this time. The facility is ready to obtain a permit. 

T CONFWENTU\L 

I have reed and have had this inspection report and the laws and regulators concemed herein explained, and do affimi that the infonnaton given herein is hue and to the best of my icrowledge. I have received a copy of 

the Licensee Bill of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT isreal Libera ) 
ID m1204 

/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 

EXHIBIT 

18955 

Insp# 113395 

INE cHANor c NEW CUraEN1'LY NOT OPERtI1NG ] CI'ttNGE OWNER ] 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465,017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY WWW DOH STATE FL US 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OP 

Insetullonal Kepresentative 
1WV359 Revised 12111,10/li, 9/11,10/10, 10109, 5/06,12102,12/00 

02-10-2012 
Date 



COMPAS lOg Production - WebUtil 

Ucense cash Exaws Lnspection ththrcemerit Utilities tftjndow deip 

'1 Department of HeaTh MQA frsuarez }03/05J201 - 

Page 1 of 1 

Find Inspections (ml 1) 0 
Fed Tax # 14542163B7 JLfis MERCEDES DRUG STORE INC S] Ucense Type j2205 zi 

File # 16955 jPhermacy Inspection # 

___________ 

Ucense # ICLEARL 

___________ 

Appi S 

Indv/Org S j857371 I Expires 12015 

Find 

Cle& 

— 

http://compasprod.doh.state.fLus:7777/forms/frmservlet?form=le login /5/20 13 

Inspection S Location Type Start Date End Date Comptaint S Status Dispostion Resut 

I i lopen JRQST jLiinown 

W12 FD2t21/1 3 j02/27/1 3 ICloss JFaiIed 

J0109t13 J01i09t13 Iclosed Failed 

TjwawIP_ 
J 

Work 

ion 

I______ 
JJ 

S 



www.sunbiz.org - Department of State•• Page 1 of 2 

List 

No Name History 
F 

Submit 

Detail by Entity Name 
Florida Profit Corporation 
LAS MERCEDES DRUG STORE, INC 

Filing Information 

Document Number P12000002746 
FEI/EIN Number 
Date Filed 
State 
Status 
Effective Date 
Last Event 
Event Date Filed 
Event Effective Date NONE 

Principal Address 
7209 SW CORAL WAY 
MIAMI FL 33155 

Mailing Address 
7209 SW CORAL WAY 
MIAMI FL 33155 

Registered Agent Name & Address 
LIBERA, ISRAEL 
7209 SW CORAL WAY 
MIAMI FL 33155 US 

Officer/Director Detail 

it CONFWENT!AL 

Name & Address 

EXHIBIT_______ 

LIBERA, ISRAEL 

1 3/5/2013 

Events 

Home / Contact Us E-FiIlng Services Document Searches Forms Help 

_____________ 

Next on List Return To List Entity Name Search 

This detail screen does not contain information about the 2013 Annual Report. 

CUck the °Search Now° button to determine if the 2013 Annual Report has been filed. 

[ Search Now j 

NONE 

01/09/2012 
FL 

ACTIVE 
01/09/2012 
AMENDMENT 
06/14/2012 

Title P 



www.sunbiz.org - Department of State 

7209 Sw CORAL WAY 
MIAMI FL 33155 

Title VTD 

Page 2 of 2 

CORDOVI, MICHEL 
7209 Sw CORAL WAY 
MIAMI FL 33155 

Annual Reports 
No Annual Reports Filed 

Document Images 

06/14/2012--Amendment 

01/09/2012 -- Domestic Profit 

[ View image in PDF format ] 
View image in PDF format j 

Previous on List 

Events 

Next on List 

No Name History 

Return To List Entity Name Search 

Submit 

I 
Home 

I 
Contact us 

I 
Document Searches 

I 
E-Filinq Services 

I 
Forms 

I 
Help 

I 

Copyriqht© and Privacy Policies 
State of Florida, Department of State 

3/5/2013 



(((1112000158966 3))) 

i 1W nut 11111111111111 11111 nUi 1 liii IU 1111111111 JUl fill 

Notet DO NOT hit the REFRESHIPELOAD bnuu on your browser from this page. Dothg so 
wül — cove 

Fromr 

Divisioc of Corporations 
Fax Number (850)617—6380 

Accomit llama 
Account Number 
Phone 
Fax Ntmtber 

IAZJIRUS CORPORATE SF.RVICE, INC. 19 
(30$) 552—59fl 
(305)220—1440 

V.. 

"Enter the email address for this entity to be used for future 
annual report mailings. Enter only one email address please." l Sid.dreso: 

_____________________________________ 

S 

Electronic Filing Menu Corporate Filing i l4etp 

Mste Please print this page and use it as * cov!r skeet Type the fax audit nwnber (shown 
below) on tbn top a$ bottom off all pages of the document 

(%J 

04 C 

Certificate of Status 

COlt AMNDIRESTATE/CORRECT OR O/D RESIGN 
LAS MERCU)ES DRUG STORE, INC 

I________________________ 

______ 

EsdCh'z 
1 

I 

ertified Cnpy : 

Page Count I 

I 

o osj 

\' 
'0 

— 



04/28/2030 02:13 #0289 P.002/005 
06/t4/ 812 12:44 3058252948 - 4LEE5 

t )h 
LAS MERCEDES DRUG STORE INC 

otCm a4kas% atknttth the 

100002748 
I 

(bccuwsn Niimba otCcrjondon (if biwn) 

Tuna tO the pnwistøn 607.1006, FlarWa St*a lit Fh,ft Cstpfltmv cdapW the folk wing w ndnt jto 
iaAnic 

ame,fltn the t ewnontSt 

_________The 

is a S be Sdingu&nbte and contain the waS Us,pflnajo,% a' m' the aMntiwt 
ap. 0' a' ," w the tdgnattn "Cap." c a-. Cot A pr*SflcI cwpoton name must antS, the 

woN '. ,wtc'et "pqbtnidntl aMOdaJSOTL - a- the abb4evinhIoft .4 
r new nittinal ofRet*6dres*. 

) 

C. 
im 

ft 3ft — the Ara 

Namnf 

Nn i 4MnS if th..n.Inv Aert 
fbseb ecpt the QflCbW.ad as jasnfastkrwit aid accq% the of the pqdttoa. 

3hat VZ4W Resfrtnd4gi u. 4fchafl 

1112000158166 

ip) 

Pepto! I 

in norMs , So ninoitba 

•noxfda 



04/26/2030 02:13 #0288 P.003/005 
66/i4/ 12:44 3558252949 MS4 ¼tNS 85/07 

I 
p 

If Kng the Offices ialor Dfrrcton, nter the tt*$e and naao 0 each emeeldlnttor btng and s, aM , ,tathOfflcer usd10, Dhrdor bSg added: 
(Swab d*dwS 4eeb. 

Fktrei ,se the qfftceth*ngtort We thefts liner of she oj7cSo I 

fln Th'&dCC T' $a &qaoa Zhwtee; C or a.* - 
.&tctt qg2ev7 - OWE VtaJtc&l hol& Inert s4am CSC 114 list the fir of erA . 
Add fl sida& DlfldDrYvPJd be FlU 

be m :hefr&wrng Doi(b lined w the flTand MAke s v liznda the . Thee is 
o — Mike Jones. tceit the COIWPJISL SnUb S Thee ahosttdbe John Doe. fla e C*angv, 
MLLV.4 

$aflvStth 

S 
1) Cisigo VTD 1 7209 SW CORAL WAY 

MLAA$J. 

•Md 

.Md 

4)_ Ozangi — 
M4 

— Rmnovc 

5) 
Add — . I 

Rrove 



04/26/2030 02:13 
86/14/ 2012 12:44 8252949 littA vagr 

#0269 P. 004/005 

PAIr e5/o7 

it jffi 
• 
(cc 

r 8966 
. 

hadtonalsha Vnscaswy). (De.pe4cc) 

, 

p. ffj fl 
n..& ms. 

. 

. 



04/28/2030 02:13 
tibFt4/Z212 12:44 3258252948 VALXS MS VPLDES 

#0289 005 
07/07 

The da death iun.aA...nke) adopdet 

1112000158966 

Effete tft___ 
(so ator than POdqS qjfrnoi&n,uflkda*) 

A&çd a ttncw n ) 

t The inettait(s) w&waio Sopted by the ssehoM 
byl sitaSioldef S was/wart sefficici thr approvaL 

0 The waztwtre b& en thmugb vcdng groups ThivjblMwtng Staun 
e t ' ritJw itte £qanztely on the ommdua#(9: 

The nwnbe of'.otes aag thr the aznMdment(S) 

by 

o The sneiSont) adoitad by the board of d 

aal 4 L *n not requiS. 

O The mcnditatt4) t'Swere sdoptcd by th. Ineorpos 
aeth twa not rat 

flmrd 

wfthOt4 dlartt%oldvr actior and sbareboldc 

t withcut shareholder action pjtebo Ider 

a dndor, ptSdcn er at 
byts 

appoktedfiduoiaty by that (I 

t officet— If dinctos or officots have bcai 
if In the laS a tectha, Vv*rc. art taint 

ra. The uwnbcro( votn for the antcndnicnt(4 

ISRAEL LIBI RA 
(mncdor 

PRESIDENI 
(fidac parson ulptkeaj 

A 

rage 4 

H 000158966 



• Electróñié A Sides of Tncorporãtion 
For January09 2012 

Sec. OrStak 
jshivers 

LAS MERCEDES DRUG STORE, INC 

The undersigned incorporator, for the purpose of forming a Florida 
profit corporation, hereby adopts the following Articles of Incorporation: 

Article I 
The name of the corporation is: 

LAS MERCEDES DRUG STORE, INC 

Article II 
The principal place of business address: 

7209 Sw CORAL WAY 
MIAMI, FL. 33155 

The mailing address of the corporation is: 

7209 SW CORAL WAY 
MIAMI, FL. 33155 

Article III 
The purpose for which this corporation is organized is: 

ANY AND ALL LAWFUL BUSINESS. 

Article IV 
The number of shares the corporation is authorized to issue is: 

100 

Article V 
The name and Florida street address of the registered agent is: 

ISRAEL LIBERA 
7209 SW CORAL WAY 
MIAMLFL. 33155 

I that I am familiar with and accept the responsibilities of 
registered agent. 

Registered Agent Signature: ISRAEL LIBERA 



P1 2000002746 
FILED 

• January09 2012 nrticte Sec. Of State 
The name and address of the incorporator is: jshivers 

ISRAEL LIBERA 
7209 SW CORAL WAY 

MIAMI FL 33155 

Electronic Signature of Incorporator: ISRAEL LII3ERA 

I am the incorporator submitting these Articles of Incorporation and affirm that the facts stated herein are 
true. I am aware that false information submitted in a document to the Department of State constitutes a 
third degree felony as provided for in s.8 17.155, F.S. I understand the requirement to file an annual report 
between January 1st and May 1st in the calendar year following formation of this corporation and every 
year thereafter to maintain "active" status. 

Article VII 
The initial officer(s) and/or director(s) of the corporation is/are: 

Title: P 
ISRAEL LIBERA 
7209 SW CORAL WAY 
MIAMI, FL. 33155 

Article VIII 
The effective date for this corporation shall be: 

01/09/2012 



www.sunbiz.org - Department of Stat! .. Page 1 of 2 

Home Contact Us E-Piting Services Document Searches Forms Help 

Events No Name History 

Entity Name Search 

Submit 

Detail by Entity Name 
Florida Profit Corporation 
LAS MERCEDES DRUG STORE, INC 

Filing Information 

Document Number 
FEI/EIN Number 
Date Filed 
State 
Status 
Effective Date 

Last Event 
Event Date Filed 

P12000002746 
NONE 
01/09/2012 

FL 

ACTIVE 
01/0912012 

AMENDMENT 
06/14/201 2 

Event Effective Date NONE 

Principal Address 
7209 SW CORAL WAY 
MIAMI FL 33155 

Mailing Address 
7209 SW CORAL WAY 
MIAMI FL 33155 

Registered Agent Name & Address 
LIBERA, ISRAEL 
7209 SW CORAL WAY 
MIAMI FL 33155 US 

Officer/Director Detail 
Name & Address 

Title P 

LIBERA ISRAEL 

3/5/2013 

Previous on List Next on List Return To List 

This detail screen does not contain information about the 2013 Annual Report. 

Ckk tM 'Searth Nowu to determine if the 2013 Annual Report has been flied. 

Search Now 



www.sunbiz.org - Department of State Page 2 of 2 

7209 SW CORAL WAY 
MIAMI 155 
Title VTD 

CORDOVI, MICHEL 
7209 sw CORAL WAY 
MIAMI FL 33155 

Annual Reports 
No Annual Reports Filed 

Document images 

06/14/2012 --Amendment [ View image in PDF format ] 
01/09/2012 --Domestic Profit [ View image in PDF format 

Previous on 

Events 

List Next on List Return To List 

No Name History 

Entity Name Search 

I 
Subn{IF] 

I 
Home I Contact us 

I 
Document Searches 

I 
E-Filinq Services 

I 
Forms 

I 
Help I 

Copyriqht© and Privacy Policies 
State of Florida, Department of State 

3/5/2013 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201216397 

JESSICA DANIELLE BRAMBLE, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: JESSICA DANIELLE BRAMBLE 
22393 OCEANSIDE AVE 
PORT CHARLOTTE, FL 33952 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama 
City Beach, FL 32408, (850)-236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as 'timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m. ;therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

Mo d Executive Director 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

/ Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO . Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 24544.44 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flodda through John NI. Armstrong, MD, FAGS 
state, county & community efforts. 

General & Secretary 

ion To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Mark Whitteri, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Matthew G. Witters, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Settlement Agreement 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Jessica Danielle Bramble, R.P.T. 

DOH Case Number 2012-16397 

DATE: August 28, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: Jessica Danietle Bramble 

Subject's Address of 22393 Oceanside Ave 
Record: Port Charlotte, FL 33952 

Enforcement Address: 22393 Oceanside Ave 
Port Charlotte, FL 33952 

Subject's License No: 24357 Rank: RPT 

Licensure File No: 26148 

Initial Licensure Date: 12/31/2009 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: Yes 

Current PRN Contract: No 

Florida Department of Health www.FiorldasHeatth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Services Unit TWI1TER:HeaithyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row- Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fidoh 
PHONE: 6501245-4444' FAX 850/245-4684 



Allegation(s): Count I: Section 465.016(1)(e), F.S. (2011), by 
admitting to a violation of Section 893.13(7)(a)(g), F.S. 

Count II: Section 465.016(1)(e), F.S. (2011), by 
violating Section 499.005(4), F.S. (2011), by admittingly 
substituting hydromorphone with sterile water and returning 
it to the Pyxis machine 

Prior Discipline: None 
Probable Cause Panel: January 31, 2013 

Fallon & Risch 

Subjects Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Lee Memorial Health System 
Post Office Box 2218 
Laureen Harris, System Counsel 
Ft Myers, FL 33902 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Settlement Agreement 

Exhibit A — Administrative Complaint 
Board Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 

Cost Summary 

PCP Memorandum 

Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1 thru 9 

GUIDELINES: 
Count I: From a $5,000 fine and two years probation up to revocation. 
Count II: From $1,000 fine up revocation. 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

After an investigation, the Respondent admitted to accessing various pyxis machines without a 
legitimate reason to do so and removing hydromorphone and replacing it with sterile water. 

Terms of Settlement: 
• Appearance 
• Costs limited to $2,784.33 
• Revocation 

Florida Department of Health www.FioridasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel' Proseajflon Services Unit TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Cypress Way, Bin 0.65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 CEBOOK:FLDepertrnentofl-lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 -FAX 850/245-4684 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

CASE , 
JESSICA DANIELLE BRAMBLE, R.PWTI, 

RESPONDENT. 

/ 

SETFLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, Jessica Danielle Bramble, 

R.P.T., was a licensed registered pharmacy technician in the state of 

Florida, having been issued license number RPT 24357. Respondent's 

mailing address of record is 22393 Oceanside Avenue, Port Charlotte, 

Florida 33952. 



2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that she is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department. 

2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED 

1. - Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed TWO THOUSAND SEVEN 

HUNDRED EIGHTY-FOUR DOLLARS AND THIRTY-THREE CENTS 

2 





5. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board for which disciphnary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

6. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

7. PurDose of Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

4 



the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

8. Not Preckide Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

9. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

10. Waiver of Procedural - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

11. Current - Respondent shall keep current his/her 

mailing address and his/her practice address with the Board of Pharmacy 

and the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

5 



Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within. D days••bf the change. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settflement Agreement in resolution of this 

matter. 

SIGNED this day of 2013 

3 SICA DANIE LE BRAMBLE, R.P.T. 
CASE NO. 2012-16397 

STATE OFE 

COUNTY OF 

Before me personally R.rai.n , 
known to me or . 
identification), and who, under o ges that his/her 
appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of , 

VEROI€CA & PALUMSO 
Notary Public, State of da 

Commjsalon# EE25039 
My xmm expires Sept 9, 2014 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

6 

whose identity is 
(type of 
signature 



APPROVED this day of 

___________________, 

2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

Matthew G. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 

Counsel for Petitioner 
Matthew G. Witters 
Florida Bar No. 091245 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 
Tel.: 850.245.4640 
Fax: 850.245.4683 

7 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16397 

JESSICA DANIELLE BRAMBLE, 

RESPONDENt 

__________________I. 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner Department of Health, by and through its undersigned 

counsel, files this Administrative Complaint before the Board of Pharmacy 

against Respondent, Jessica Danielle Bramble, R.P.T., and in support 

thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At aH times material to this Order, Respondent was a licenses 

registered pharmacy technician (RPT) operating within the State of Florida, 

pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes, holding permit number RET 

24357. 



Respondent's address of record is 22393 Oceanside Avenue, 

Port Charlotte, Florida 33952. 

4. At all time material to this complaint, Respondent was 

employed as a RPT at Health Park Medical Center (HPMC) in Lee 

County, Florida. 

5. HPMC utihzes the Pyxis automated medication dispensing 

wstem , Pyxis is a locked cart that contains controlled substances 

and is accessed through the use of a computer. Each time a nurse 

removes a controlled substance from the Pyxis cart, he or she must identify 

the patient for whom the medication is intended. If the dose available in 

the Pyxis cart is greater than the dose designated by the physician, the 

nurse must discard the excess in the presence of a witness and document 

doing so in the Pyxis computer. This is done to accurately account for 

controlled substances removed and to assure proper billing of the patient 

for nursing care provided. To accurately record care rendered to the 

patient, all medications administered must be documented in the patient's 

record. 

6. Additionally, HPMC's Pyxis system included a biometric scanner 

which required fingerprint confirmation for each entry into the system. 

Departhient of Health v. Jessica Danielle Bramble, R.P.T. 
2 

Case Number 2012-16397 
AC - 893 



, HPMC utilizes the DSX access control system. The DSX access 

control system maintains record of each access via a secured electronic 

database requiring a unique identifier for each use. 

8. On or about January 22, 2012, Respondent was witnessed by 

I-IPMC staff entering multiple medication rooms on multiple floors at HPMC. 

9. On or about January 23, 2012, an investigation was initiated by 

HPMC into the Respondent's actions and entries into the Pyxis medication 

system. 

10. As a result of this investigation, HPMC was able to obtain 

records which showed that the Respondent entered medication rooms and 

accessed Pyxis machines when she had no legitimate reason to do so. 

11. On or about February 1, 2012, Respondent participated in a 

recorded telephonic interview with HPMC staff. 

12. During the course of this intendew, Respondent admitted to 

accessing various Pyxis machines at HPMC without a legitimate reason to 

do so, and removing hydromorphone. 

13. Hydromorphone is prescribed to treat pain. According to 

Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes, hydromorphone is a Schedule II 

controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a currently 

Depar&nent of lth v. Danielle &amble, R.PJ. 
3 Case Number 2012-16397 

AC - 893 



accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United 

States, and abuse of hydromorphone may lead to severe psychological or 

physical dependence. 

14. AddltionaUy, Respondent admitted to substituting the 

hydromorphone with sterile water and returning it to the Pyxis machine. 

15. Section 499.006(8)(b), Florida Statutes (2011), provides that a 

drug is adulterated if any substance has been substituted wholly or part. 

COUNT ONE 

16. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 

through fifteen (15), as if fully set forth herein. 

17. Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2011), provides that a 

registered pharmacy technician can be disciplined, including suspension, 

for violating a provision of Chapter 893, Florida Statutes. 

18. Section 893.13(7)(a)(9), Florida Statutes, prohibits a person 

from acquiring or obtaining, or attempting to acquire or obtain, possession 

of a controlled substance by misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception, 

or subterfuge. 

19. Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes 

(2010), by violating Section 893.13(7)(a)(9), Florida Statutes, by obtaining 

Departnent of Health v. Danielle Bramble, R.PJ. 4 
Case Numba 
AC-893 



hydromorphone, a controlled substance by fraudulent means, as admitted 

during her recorded interview with a F-IPMC staff. 

20. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2011), by admitting to a violation of 

Section 893. 13(7)(a)(9), Florida Statutes. 

COUNT TWO 

21. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 

through fifteen (15), as if fully set forth herein. 

22. Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2011), provides that a 

registered pharmacy technician can be disciplined, including suspension, 

for violating a provision of Chapter 499, Florida Statutes. 

22. Section 499.006(8)(b), Florida Statutes (2011), provides that a 

drug is adulterated if any substance has been substituted wholly or in part 

23. Section 499.005(4), Florida Statutes (2011), provides that the 

receipt of any drug, device, or cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded, 

and the delivery or proffered delivery of such drug, device, or cosmetic, for 

pay or otherwise is grounds for disciplinary action. 

24. Respondent admitted to substituting hydromophone with sterile 

water and returning it to the Pyxis machine at HPMC. 

Departrn&tt of Health v. Danlelle Bramble, R.P.T. 
5 

Case Number 2012-16397 
AC - 893 



25. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2011), by violating Section 499.005(4), 

Florida Statutes (2011), by admittethy substituting hydromorphone with 

le water and returning ñt to the Pyxis machine, 

of Health v. iessie Danielle Bramble, R.P.T. 6 
Case Numba- 2012-16397 
AC - 893 



WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Nursing enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this day of 

John I-I. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

G. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0091245 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
DEPUTY CLERK Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 

CLERK Angel Sanders Telephone: (850) 245-4640 
(850) 245-4683 

Email: matthew_witters©doh.state.fl.us 

PCP: O1-3I—/3 
PCP Members: 

Department of Health v. Danielle Bramble, R.P.T. 7 

Case Nurnba 2012-15397 
AC - 893 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 12037, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section .072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

Departhient of Health v. Danlelle Bramble, R.P.t 
B 

Case Number 2012-16397 
AC - 893 



Rick Scott 
Mission: i - I 

Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health I 

______________ 

of all people in Florida through lnte9rated 
I John H Annstrong, , FACS 

state, ceunty & efforts. I State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

August 29, 2013 

VIA US MAIL 

Jessica Danielle Bramble, R.P.T. 
22393 Oceanside Avenue 
Port Charlotte, Florida 33952 

Re; DOH vs. Jessica Danielle Bramble, R.P.T. l Case Number: 2012-16397 

Dear Ms. Bramble: 

I am in receipt of the settlement agreement executed by you on March 6, 2013 concerning the above 
referenced case. 

Our office is now making preparation for this settlement to be presented at the next meeting of the 
Florida Board of Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9, 2013 at the Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 
Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408. Please be advised your case will be set at the 
convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the 
date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office at 850-245-4444, ext. 8172. 

Sincerely, 

Matthew G.Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 

MGW/crl 

cc: file 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit IeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin • Tallahassee, FL 323gg-17o1 FACEBOOKFLDepartnentofrleatth 
Express mail address: 2565 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

YDUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 FAX 8501245-4683 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 291216397 

Subject's Name: BRAMBLE, JESSICA DANIELLE 

Page 1 ot 1 

I 
Cost to Date ***** 

Hours Costs 

Complaint: 1 $27.45I 

Investigation: [ 
16.4011 1 

Legal: 7.80] 1 
ICompliance: 0.051 $1.61 _ **********I ********** 

ISub Total: 
[ 24.751 1 

lExpenses to Date: so.ooj 

Prior Amount: 
I 

jTotal Costs to Date: 
I 
1 

ICSDETL.ASP 3/13/2013 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Jessica Danielle Brambie, R.IF.T. 
Case Number: 2012-16397 

MEMBERS: Leo FaHon and Lorena Risch 

DATE OF PCP: January 31, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-12 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above dale. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise hilly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.016(l3(et Florida Statutes (2001t by admittina to a violation of Section 893.13(7KaX9), 
Florida Statutes (2011 t by admitting to a violation of Section 893.1 )(9t Florida Statutes. 

Section ), Florida Statutes ). by violating Section ). Florida Statutes (201 1'). by 
admittedly substituting hydromorphone with sterile water and returnina it to the Pyxis . 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other -y 
Chair, Pro able ause Panel Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flobea through integrated 

John H Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon Generni & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201307687 

HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC 
1343 FOUR SEASONS BLVD 
TAMPA, FL 33613 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is not required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City 
Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

Executive Director 
f/BOARD OF PHARMACY 
f Florida Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTIJBE: fldoh 



To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

Ana M. Gargollo-McDonald, Assistant General Counsel 

Voluntary Relinquishment 

DON v. Healthy Choice Pharmacy, Inc., PH 

DOH Case Number: 2013-07687 

DATE: July 17, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 

final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 

information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: 

Subject's Address of 

Record: 

Enforcement Address: 

Healthy Choice Pharmacy, Inc., PH 

1343 Four Seasons Blvd. 

Tampa, FL 33613 

1343 Four Seasons 

Tampa, FL 33613 

25637 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 

Initial Licensure Date: 

Board Certification: 

Required to Appear: 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: 

18501 

8/25/2011 

No 

No 

No 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel • bon Services Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 FAX 850/245-4683 

www.FlorldasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDeparhnentoiHealth 
VOUTUBE: fldoh 

To protect promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, & efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

It FACS 

General & Secretary 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

SUBJECT: 

Subject's License No: 

Blvd. 



Allegation(s): Violated Section 456.072(1)(dd), Florida Statutes 

(2012), also by violating Rule 64B16-28.202(a)(b), 

Florida Administrative Code 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: Waived 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Department Of Health/Investigative Services 

Unit-Tampa 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Motion For Voluntary Relinquishment of License 

Voluntary Relinquishment (filed) 

Board Notification Letter 

Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1-9 

AMD/bhh 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit TWITTER:HeaIThyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way! Bin 0-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 OeparlnientoftMealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Row - Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 8501245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4683 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 9 
v. CASE NO.. 2013-07687 

HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, ., 
Respondent. 

_________________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER BASED UPON 
A VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a 

Final Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been 

determined and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore Petitioner 

states: 

1. On or about June 27, 2013, a Complaint was filed with the 

Department of Health, alleging that Respondent violated provisions of 

Chapter 456 and/or Chapter 464, Florida Statutes. 

2. In lieu of undergoing further disciplinary proceedings, 

Respondent returned an executed Voluntary Relinquishment of License. 



3. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, 

establishing a prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

enter a Final Order accepting the terms of the Voluntary Relinquishment of 

License. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General and Sec tary of Health 

ANA M. (d-MCDONALD 
Assistant General Counsel 
Ha. Bar No. 0008907 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: ana_gargollo-mcdonald@doh.state.fl.us 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of,the above and 
foregoing h been provided by U.S. mail this of 

__________________,2013, 

to: HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, 
INC., 3 FØUR SEASONS 

ANA M. GARGOLLIMCDONALD 
Assistant General Counsel 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 

CLERK Amy CarralVcly 
TE STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. DOH Case No. 2013-07687 

Healthy Choice Pharmacy, Inc., Pharmacy 
Respondent. 

_I 

VOLUNTARY OF LICENSE 

Respondent Healthy Choice Pharmacy, Inc., Pharmacy, license No. 25637, hereby 

voluntarily relinquishes Respondent's license to practice pharmacy in the State of Florida and 

states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further administrative action with respect to this cause, Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment shall be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license 

pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. As with any disciplinary action, this 

relinquishment will be reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank as disciplinary 

action. Licensing authorities in other states may impose discipline in their jurisdiction 

based on discipline taken in Florida. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for Ucensure as a Pharmacy in the State 

of Florida. 

tNV FORM 425, Revised 04-13, created 02-10 



3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing pharmacy immediately 

upon executing this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from 

the practice of pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section .073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and comØlaint become public record and 

remain public record and that information is immediately accessible to the public. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating 

this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

, Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Boards acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter, 

7, Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this 



luntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the 

Board, or any of its members, from further partidpation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DATED this day of 

____ ___________, 

2013. 

Healthy Choice Pharmacy, Inc. I 
OF 

COUNTY OF 

Before me, personally appeared i , whose js 

known to me or who produced /acc ck of identification) and 

who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this d9- day of 3 , 2013 

TARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires: 

SCOTT M. MARTIN 

SCOTT M. MARTIN 
14 COmnSSiOn ft EE 115226 

w ExpiresJuly2s,2315 

Expires July 25, 2015 
1?n hTsrno 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, prornote & irnprove the health . 
opeoinFloridauhtegrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Sul9eon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

July 18, 2013 

VIA U.S. MAIL 

HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, 
1343 FOUR SEASONS BLVD. 
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33613, 

Re: DOH vs. HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC. PH. 
DOH Case Number: 2013-07687 

Dear SIR/MADAM: 

We are in receipt of your executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. As you are aware by signing the 
Voluntary Relinquishment of License form, you agreed to the following: 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against your license, 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1 )(f), Florida Statutes; 

• you would never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacy in the State of Florida; and 
• Voluntarily relinquishing your Florida Pharmacy license may have an effect on Pharmacy 

licenses that you may hold in other states. 

If this is not what you understand, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 850-245-4640. 
Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of Nursing will take up your request 
for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their meeting scheduled for October 9, 2013, at the 
Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Coley Drive, Panama City, Florida 32408, You are not 
required to attend the meeting. 

NA M. GARGO 0-MCDONALD 
Assistant General Counsel 

AMD/bhh 

Florida Department of Health ldasHsalth.com 
of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL FACEBOOK:FLDeparthientotlealth 
PHONE: 8501245-4444 ext 6109' FAX 650/245-4683 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Off ce: TAMPA Date of Case: 05/14/13 Case Number 201307687 
Subject: HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC. 
1343 Four Seasons Blvd 
Tampa, FL 33613 
813-644-7199 

Source: l I ISU I TAMPA 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 

PH 25637 Pharmacy Pharmacy 06/27/13 

Period of Investigation: 05/29/13 to 06/27/13 Type of Report: FINAL 

Alleged Violation: , 456.072(1)(k)(dd); F.S. 465.016(1)(r); 465.023(1)(c); RULE 64B16-28.202(3)(a)(b) F.A.C.: Failing 
to perform...; Violating any provision...; Violated any of the requirements...; In the event of closure of a pharmacy, the 
permittee shall notify the Board 

Synopsis: This report is predicated upon a Case Summary. (Exhibit #1), based upon a complaint from the Tampa 
Investigative Services Unit. On 02/14/13, Investigator JOSEPH IO attempted to perform a routine 
pharmacy inspection at HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC. with the primary business address located at 8315 
Sheldon Rd., Tampa, FL. According to Investigator IO, the location was vacant with no signs posted. 
HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC. did not notify the Board of Pharmacy of the closure of the facility. 

On 05/29/131 Investigator SCOTT MARTIN notified HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC. of the investigation by letter, 
(Exhibit #2), dated 05/29/13 to the address of record and was provided a copy of the Case Summary, Complaint, and a 
Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form. 

A check of the DOH computer licensure records revealed that HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC. is licensed as a 
pharmacy. The current license expired on 02/28/13 and is in a delinquent status. 

The patient notification was not utilized since no patients were identified. 

The source notification letter was not utilized since the complainant is the Department of Health. 

HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC is not currently reDresented by an . 
On 06/26/13, ROBERT SILVESTRO, owner of HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC., met with Investigator MARTIN at 
the Tampa ISU office and signed the Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form. 

Related Case(s): N ne 

6/21/13 Approved By/Date: — 

Scott M. Martin TI-149 Babette S. Agett TI-i 15 

Investigation Specialist II Investigation Supervisor s 
Distribution: ISU — lçf Page 1 O 

J0t4 g 2013 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

'! FORM , created 07/02 
V 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPOF" CASE "JMBER: 201307687 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INWESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 

Interview of ROBERT S. SILVESTRO / Witness 4 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. CaseSummary 57 
2. Copy of Notification Letter dated 05/29/13 8-17 

3. Florida Corporation information regarding corporation ownership 18 - 20 

4. Copy of Pharmacy Inspection Report dated 02/14/13 21 

5. Photographs of business 22 

6. CD (one) of photographs 23 

7. Evidence Control Form (Photographs) 24 

8. Voluntary Relinquishment signed by SILVESTRO on 06/26/13 25-27 

*9 E-mail message sent to DANNY HERNANDEZ, Deputy General Counsel PSU 28 

*EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE SEALED 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(1O)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES. 

records are sealed pursuant to Section 456.057(10)(a}, Florida Statutes and copies of same are 
not maintained in the Tampa Investigative Services office. 

WV FORM 300, Revised 02/08, created 07/02 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPOF' CASE "JMBER: 201307687 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #1 is the Case Summary. 

Exhibit #2 is the Notification Letter sent on 05/29/13 to the following addresses obtained in the COMPAS 
database and Florida Corporation Website. 

• 1343 Four Seasons Blvd., Tampa, FL 33613 
• 8315 Sheldon Rd., Tampa, FL 33615 

Exhibit #3 is the Florida Corporation information regarding ownership of HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, 
INC. 

Exhibit #4 is a copy of the most recent Pharmacy Inspection Report dated (13 
Exhibit #5 includes the photographs (two) of HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC. location. These 
photographs were taken by Investigator SCOTT MARTIN on 05/30/1 3. 

Exhibit #6 is one CD of the photographs. 

Exhibit #7 is the Evidence Control Form. One CD of the photographs has been entered into evidence in the 
Tampa ISU office. 

Exhibit #8 is the Voluntary Relinquishment form signed by SILVESTRO on 06/26/13. 

Exhibit #9 is the e-mail message sent to DANNY I-fERNANDEZ, PSU Deputy General Counsel, along with a 
scanned copy of the Voluntary Relinquishment. 

INV FORN 300, Revised 02/08, created 07/02 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPOF' CASE 201307687 

Interview of ROBERT S. SILVESTRO - Owner of HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC. ) 
1343 Four Seasons Blvd. 
Tampa, FL 33613 
813-644-7199 

On 06/21/1 3, Investigator SCOTT MARTIN interviewed ROBERTS. SILVESTRO, owner of HEALTHY 
CHOICE PHARMACY, INC., via telephone. SILVESTRO stated he applied for a pharmacy license for 
HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC. and had every intention of opening for business. A PHARMACIST was 
hired to obtain licensure. SILVESTRO signed a lease for business space at 8315 Sheldon RD, Tampa FL. 
The leased space was built out to accommodate the pharmacy and signage was installed to identify the 
pharmacy's location. He contacted the DEA on 05/08/12 and withdrew his pharmacy permit application. 
SILVESTRO stated he ran out of money waiting for the DEA permit approval. 

On 06/26/1 3, SILVESTRO met with Investigator Martin at the Tampa ISU office and signed a Voluntary 
Relinquishment form (Exhibit #8). SILVESTRO was identified by his Florida Driver's License. 

INV FORM 300, Revised 02/08, created 07/02 

Page 4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Detail by Entity Name Page 1 of 2 

Events No Name History 

Return to Search Results 

OEntity Name Search 

Search 

by Name 

lorida Profit ion 
HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC. 

Information 

Document Number 
FEI/EIN Number 
Date Filed 
State or Country 
Status 
Effective Date 
Last Event 
Event Date Filed 
Event Effective Date 

P1 0000031 934 
272339296 

04/13/2010 
FL 

INACTIVE 
04/1312010 

VOLUNTARY DISSOLUTION 
04/23/2012 
NONE 

Principa,L4d4ress 
8315 SHELD&N 
rAMPA, FL 33615) 

Mailing Address 

1343 FOUR SEASONS BLVD 
IAMPA, FL 33613 

Changed: 04/28/2011 

Registered Agent Name & Address 
SILVESTRO, ROBERT SP 
1343 FOUR SEASONS BLVD 
TAMPA, FL 33613 

kddress Changed: 04/28/2011 

Officer/Director Detail 

Name & Address 

ritle P 

arr# 
—3 

% 
10000031934... 5/29/2013 



Detail by Entity Name Page 2 of 2 

SILVESTRO, ROBERT S 
1343 FOUR SEASONS BLVD 
IAMPAI FL 33613 

Us E-Filing Services Document Searches Forms Help 

Report Year Filed Date 
2011 0412812011 

04123/2012 — VOLUNTARY DISSOLUTION 

04128/2011 --ANNUAL REPORT 

04/13/2010 - Domestic Profit 

Events No Name History 

Return to Search Results 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

Name Search 

Search 

- 

I 
Concacr us 

I 
Document 

F 

E-Filino Services 

Copyright 1 ies 
State ot Honda, Deuartrrient of State 

? '4ame/dompp 10000031934... 5/29/2013 



FILED 
Apr 23, 2012 

Secretary of State 

ARTICLES OF DISSOLUTION 

Pursuant to section 607.1401, Florida Statutes, this Florida corporation submits the following Articles 
of Dissolution: 

FIRST: The name of the corporation as currently filed with the Florida Department of State: 

HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC. 

SECOND: The document number of the corporation: P10000031934 

THIRD: The file date of the articles of incorporation: April 13, 2010 

FOURTH: None of the corporation's shares have been issued. 

The corporation has not commenced business. 

FIFTH: No debt of the corporation remains unpaid. 

SIXTH: The net assets of the corporation remaining after winding up have been distributed to 
the shareholders, if shares were issued. 

SEVENTH: A majority of the incorporators authorized the dissolution. 

I submit this document and affirm that the facts stated herein are true. I am aware that any false information 
submitted in a document to the Department of State constitutes a third degree felony as provided for in section 
817.1 55, Florida Statutes. 

Signature: ROBERT SILVESTRO PRESIDENT 

Electronic Signature of Signing Officer, Director, Incorporator or Authorized Representative 

20 



PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Not Operating 

02-14-20 13 
Data 

/S 7 Pnarmacist Signature 

File# 18501 

110654 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

Loc NEW fl NOT OPERATiNG Ct-WNGC OWNER 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CE-tAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

IDA 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
25637 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
12013 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY, INC 

DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION 9EPARTMENT MANAGER 

STREET ADDRESS 
8315 SHELDON RD 

TELEPHONE# EXT 
813-644-7199 

CITY COUNTY 
TAMPA 39 

/ZIP 
33615 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. 

Open 2. 
Close 3. 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
I department hours opens days tar 40 hours perweek. (64816-28,1081, F.A.C.] 

2 : 2 Pharmacy technidans properly identified and supervised. (64316-27,420, F.A.C.I 
3 Pharmacial on duly when Rx department open. 84B16-28.109, F.A.C.] 

- — - — 

4 Proper signs displayed. 485.025(7). ES.] (64816-28.109(1), F.A.C.] 64B16-28,1081. F.A.C.] 64918-26,1035, F.A.C.] 64616-27.1001, F.AC.l : 
>( 

5 A verbal and primed offerto counsel is made to the patiant or the patients agent. (64616-27.620(1), F.A.C.] 
6 Prescription department has convenient sink/running water. 64616-28.102(1), F.A.C.I 

- — - — 

x 
7 Prescription department dean and sate. (64616-28.102(4). F.A.C.] 

- — - — 

6 Proper equipment and references as required. 164B16-28.102(SRa), F.A.CJ 

- — - — 

9 Medication properly labeled. 465.0255, F.S.J 64616-28.108, FAC.] 
- — - — 

10 Expired medications removed from theahelues. 164B16-28.110. F.A.C.J - — - — 

11 I Policyand Procedures and quarterly meetings. (766.101, F.S.) 64816-27.300, F.A.C.J 

12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. 465.022(4), E.S.l 
: : - — 

13 Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. 893.04(1)(c) 6, ES.] 64616-29.140(3)(b), F.A.C.( 

- 

— — 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64916-27.900, F.A.C.] 

15 ll controlled substance prescriptions contain information required. 893.04, F.S.] 

- — - 

— 

: : : — 
1$ Prescnptions for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescrtptiot, pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 

meet the requirements of (456.42(2), F.S.J. 

17 Prescriptions may not be filled in excess of one yearor six months forconirotsfrom the datewrttten. (093.04f1)(g), ES.] 84616-27.211. F.A.C.] >1. — 18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a bienniat basis and available for inspection. 1893.07(1)(a), ES.] 
19 DEA 222 cr'derforms properly completed. (893.07. P.S.] 

20 Controlled substance records and Rx information in computer system is retrievable. (2ICER 1306.22] 64B16-28.140, F.A.C.) 

— - — 

: 21 Controlled substance records maintained for4 years, 465.022(12)(b), ) - 

22 CertIfied dailylog OR printout maintained. 21CFR 1308.22(b)(3)] 64B16-28,140(3)(b), F.A.C.] : : 
23 Pharmacy is reporting to taw enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescniplions within 24 hours or close of business on next business day of teaming of instance. 

Reports include all required information. 465.01 5(3), F.S.) 

24 Record of theft or signitcant loss of all controlled substances is being mainisined and is being reported to the sheriff within 24 hours of discovery. 1893.07(5), ES.) 465.015, P.S.] N I 

26 Pharmacy is reporting to the POMP within 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), ES.] 

26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler permit is reporting sates to the Controlled Substance Reporting syatem monthly by the 20th of the following month. 
499.0121(14), ) 

27 Registered phannacist properly prescribing. 64916-27.210. FA.C.J 

28 Compounding records properly maintained. 64616-28.140(4), F.A,C.]' 

29 Unit dose records property maintained. (465.016(1)0), F.S.I 164816-28.118, E.A.C.l 

- — — 

30 Pedigree records retrievable, 64F-12.012(3)(a)2., (d), E.A.C.j 

31 Preparation lime does not exceed I hourwhen preparing, and adminstralion begins not lalerthan 1 hourfollowing start of immediate use CSPs. F.A.C.] 

— 

32 Preparation is properly labeled if preparer does not administer or wit,iess administration when preparing immediate-use CSPs. 84916-27.797(1) (j), E.A.C.] 
— 
— 

Note: If establishment is engaged in sterile compounding, a separate inspection form should be completed. 

Remarks: 

To date this pharmacy has not commenced operations, Permit is set to expire 02-26-13, 

I have read aM have had this rerort and the laws and regulatons concemed herein explained, and do affirm that the informaton given herein is true and correct to the best ot my lurowtedge. I have received a copy Oi 
the Ucensec Bill of RighS. 

Institutional 
1NV359 Revised 12112.5/12,12111,10/11. ui, 10/10. 10/09, 5/06. 12/02. 12/09 

tD t1117 

at 



EXHIBIT# 

A 

d 



P 

Complaint Number: PH 2013-07687 

Patient: N/A 

Subject: HEALTHY CHOICE PHARMACY 

Investigator: Scott Martin, ISII 

CD: One (1) CD - photographs 

Exhibit # 6 

Page: 

lofi 

JUN 2 S 2U3 

TM GA 
MO 



Fl EALTIIY_CHOICE 

8315 

Mon. Fri -lOam-6pm 
Saturday - lOam-2pm 

Sunday - Closed 





 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. DOH Case No. 2013-07687 

Healthy Choice Pharmacy, Inc., Pharmacy 
Respondent. 

VOLUNTARY qUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent Healthy Choice Pharmacy, ., Pharmacy, license No. 25637, hereby 

voluntarily relinquishes Respondent's license to practice pharmacy in the State of Florida and 

states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment shaH be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license 

pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. As with any disciplinary action, this 

relinquishment will be reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank as disciplinary 

action. Licensing authorities in other states may impose.discipline in their jurisdiction 

based on discipline taken in Florida. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacy in the State 

of Florida. 

INV FORM 425, Revised 04-13, Created 02-10 

ExHmrr# 



3. Respondent agrees to voluntarHy cease practicing pharmacy immediately 

upon executing this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from 

the practice of pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become public record and 

remain public record and that information is immediately accessible to the public. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating 

this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this 



Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the 

Board, or any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DAThDthis zcdayof V . 
Healthy Choice Pharmacy, Inc. 

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF tPi 

Before me, personally appeared 

known to me or who produced 

who, under oath, acknowledges 

Sworn to and subscribed before 

My Commission Expires 

c 

that his signature appears above. 

methis c9.42 dayof 3 ft,fl..Q 

J(flr 
i4 TARY PUBUC 

scou M. MARliN 

Expires ly 25, 2015 
Tin. Iioy l, 

_________________________________ 

whose identity is 

cLot of identification) and 

2013. 

1 SCOTt M. MARTIN : 
8OIdedThuTrayFl, 



Blank Pagelofi 

Agett, Babette 

To: Hernandez, Daniel 

Cc: Marlin, Scott M. 

Subject: 013-07687 
Attachments: VR - 2013-07687.pdf 

ban - attached, please find a Voluntary Relinquishment f or case #: 2013-07687 / Healthy Choice Pharmacy, Inc. This 
case involved a pharmacy that had been abandoned without proper notification to the Board so that the license could 
be closed. The owner opted to sign the VR. 

I was advised to send it to you. Thank you. Babette Agett / Tampa ISU. 

Babette Smith Agett, RN. 
Investigation Supervisor 
DQH I MQA I 1311 / Tampa 
6800 N. Dale Maing Iwy; Ste. 220 
Tampa FL 33614 
813-873-4798; Fax: 813-871-7421 

Customer Satisfaction Survey 

Mission: The mission of the Department of Health is to protect , promote & improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, county & community 
efforts. 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from state officials regarding state business are public records, which are 
available to the public and media upon request. Your email communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

There have been changes to the license renewal process. Please visit to learn more, 

lID CONFIDENTIAL 
exinan 

6/27/20 13 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida Through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon Genemi & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

vs. CASE NO. 201307692 

DRM ENTERPRISES, INC., 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. 
P.O. BOX 2969 
LAKELAND, FL 33806 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is not required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City 
Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

k 
xecutive Director 
OF PHARMACY 

Aorida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFL.A 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444• FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Minion - kc 

To proleci. promote & improve the health 

John IL Armstrong, , FACS 
state, county & community A 'TLFI State Surgeon Genemi & Secretary 

Vision: lobe the Healthiest State In the Nation 

TO: 

MEMORAND UM 

of Pharmacy Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board 

FROM: Michael Lawrence, Jr., Assistant General Counsel 
RE Voluntary Relinquishment 
SUBJECT: DOH v. DRM Enterprises, Inc. 

DOH Case Number 2013-07692 

DATE: July 16. 2013 6 
Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject DRM Enterprises, Inc. 
Subject's Address of P.O. Box 2969 
Record: Lakeland, FL 33806 
Enforcement Address: .O. Box 2969 

Lakeland, FL 33806 
Subject's Ucense No: 16061 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 6578 

Initial Licensure Date: 7/1/1998 
Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): 456.072( 1)(k)(dd), VS 

465.016(1)(r), FS 

465.023( 1)(c), FS; 64816-28.202(3)(a)(b), FAC 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: waived 

Subject's Attorney: A S Weekley 
1635 North Tampa St #100 
Tampa, FL 33602 

Complainant/Address: Department Of Health/Investigative Services 
Unit-Tampa 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Anal Order 
Voluntary Relinquishment 
Notification Letter 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1-10 

Florida Department of Health , 
Office of the Genezal Counsel• Services t 

1W1TrERi-IeakhyffLA 
4052 Bald Cypwss Way, Bin C'lS • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row — Suite 105 

YOtJTUBE: Cldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 858/245-4683 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-07692 

DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. 
Respondent 

_I 
MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER 

BASED UPON A VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, by and through its undersigned counsel, 

and moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order in the above- 

styled cause on a date and time that has been determined and noticed by 

the Board. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner would state the following: 

1. On or about May 14, 2013, a Uniform Consumer Complaint was 

filed with the Department of Health, alleging that the Subject violated the 

provisions of Chapter 456 or Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. In lieu of undergoing further disciplinary proceedings, the 

Respondent returned an executed Voluntary Relinquishment of his/her 

license. 

3. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case shall be furnished to the Board to 



• establish a prima fade case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Uniform Consumer Complaint. 

WHEREFORE the parties respectfully request the Board of Pharmacy 

enter a Final Order incorporating the terms of the Voluntary 

Relinquishment of Licensure. 

Assistant General Counbel 
Fla. Bar No. 0011265 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 x8199 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: michael_lawrence@doh.state.fl.us 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing has been provided by U.S. certified mail this I R day of 

2013, to A.S. Weekley, 1635 North Tampa St 

#100, +ampa, FL 33602 and P.O. 6. 

Michael . Law ence, Jr 
Assistant General Coun I 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALT 

CLER 
ry CLERK 

DAfl 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARThENT OF HEALTh 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. DOH Case No. 2013-07692 

DRM Enterprises, Inc., Pharmacy 
Respondent. 

______I 

QF 

Respondent DRM Enterprises, Inc., Pharmacy, license No. 16061, hereby voluntarily 

reUnquishes Respondent's license to practice pharmacy in the State of Florida and states as 

follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further administrative action with respect to this , Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment shall be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license 

pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f)), Florida Statutes. As with any disciplinary action, this 

relinquishment will be reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank as disciplinary 

action. Licensing authorities in other states may impose discipline in their jurisdiction 

based on discipline taken in Florida. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for Ficensure as a Pharmacy In the State 

of Florida, 

INV FORM 425, Revised 13. created 02-10 

qo 



3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing pharmacy immediately 

upon executing this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from 

the practice of pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. in order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department 

when appropñate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become public record and 

remain public record and that information is immediately accessible to the public. 

5. Upon the Boards acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek judidal review of, or to otherwise thallenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating 

this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in with the Board's consideration of this 



Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the 

Board, or any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DATED this _dayof ,2013. 

DRM Enterprises, Inc. 

Vtl c 
. whose identity is 

ic of identiflcation) and 

p 

NOTARY 
.MyComrnission Expires: 

STATE OF 
COUNTYOF be 

Before me, personally appeared 

known to me or who produced l - - 

who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this I day of 2013. 

NoIas-y o' FLoods 4 r 'Jeqens 
My 7 
ELpies I 13 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of aU people in Florida through inte9rated 

state, county & community efforts. 

AS. Weekley 
1635 N. Tampa St #1 00 
Tampa, FL 33602 

Re: I vs. DRM Enterprises, Inc. 
DOH Case Number: 2013-07692 

Dear Mr. Weekley: 

Rick Scott 
Govemor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

We are in receipt of your client's executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. 
signing the Voluntary Relinquishment of License form your client agreed to the following: 

As you are aware by 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes; 

• he/she would never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacy in the State of Florida; and 

their license, 

• Voluntarily relinquishing lher Florida pharmacy license may have an effect on pharmacy 
licenses they may hold in other states. 

If this is not what you or your client understood, please contact me as soon as possible to 1 at 850- 
245-4444. Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of Pharmacy will take up 
your client's request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their next regularly scheduled meeting. 
You are not required to attend the meeting. 

MUab 

Florida Department of Health 
Office or the General Counsel • SeNices Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/245.4444' FAX 850/245-4683 

lorldasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACE BOO K: F LD e pa entofl4 lth 
VOUTIJBE: fldoh 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

July 18, 2013 



a 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: TAMPA Date of Case: 05/14/13 Case Number: 201307892 
Subject: DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. Source: DOH / )! TAMPA 
P.O. BOX 2969 
Lakeland FL 33806 

Prefix: License # Profession: Board: Report Date: 
PH 16061 Pharmacy Pharmacy 07/08/13 

Period of Investigation: /13 to 07/08/13 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: F.S. 456.072(1)(k)(dd); F.S. 465.016(l)(r); 465.023(1)(c); RULE 64B16-28.202(3)(a)(b) F.A.C.: Failing 
to perform...; Violating any provision...; Violated any of the requirements...; In the event of closure of a pharmacy, the 
permittee shall notify the Board 

Synopsis: This report is predicated upon a Case Summary, (Exhibit #1), based upon a complaint from the Tampa 
Investigative Services Unit. On 11/02/12, Investigator JOSEPH IO attempted to perform a routine 
pharmacy inspection at DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. I D.B.A. MARTIN DRUG at the physical address of 437 S. Central 
Avenue in Lakeland, Florida. According to Investigator IO, the location is vacant with no forwarding 
address or contact phone number. DRM ENTERPRISES INC. / D.B.A. MARTIN DRUG did not notify the Board of 
Pharmacy of the closure of the facility. 

DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. / D.B.A. MARTIN DRUG was notified of the investigation by letter, (Exhibit #2), dated 
05/29/13 to the address of record and was provided a copy of the Case Summary and complaint. 

A check of the DOH computer licensure records revealed that DRM ENTERPRISES INC. is licensed as a pharmacy. 
The current license expired on 02/28/13 and is in a delinquent status. 

The patient notification was not utilized since no patients were identified. 

The source notification letter was not utilized since the complainant is the Department of Health. 

DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. / D.B.A. MARTIN DRUG is represented by AS. WEEKLEY of lteNaldes. 
Attorneys at Law: 1635 North Tampa . Suite 100. , FL. 33602: 813-221-1154 (Exhibit #8). WEEKLEV 
requested a copy of the investigative report. 

On 07/03/1 3, Investigator MARTIN received the signed Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form from DUANE 
McKOWN, owner of DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. (Exhibit#9). 

Related Case(s): None 

Investigator/Date: J Approved By/Date: 7 — C — 

Babette S. Agett TI-i 15 

Investigation Supervisor / 6 
Distribution: HO/ISU 

1 

I C , 5' 

INV 300, created 07/02 I 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE CASE 201307692 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER i 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 

Interview 

Interview of DUANE McKOWN, Owner of DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. / Witness 4 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary 5-7 

2. Subject Notification Letter dated 05/30/13 8- 19 

3. Florida Corporation information regarding corporation ownership 20-25 

4. Inspection report 26 

5. Photographs of business 27 - 28 

6. CD of digital photographs 29 

7. Evidence Control Form (Photographs) 30 

8. Letter of Representation from A.S. WEEKLEY, Attorney, dated 06/1 9113 31 -34 

9. Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form received 07/03/13 35-42 

*10. E-mail message sent to YOLANDA GREEN, Attorney for PSU 43 

*EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE SEALED 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(1O)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

**These records are sealed pursuant to Section 456.057(10)(a), Florida Statutes and copies of same are 
not maintained in the Tampa Investigative Services office 

INV FORM 300, Revised 02/08, Created 07/02 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPOF' CASE 201307692 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #1 is the Case Summary 

Exhibit #2 is the Subject Notification Letter and Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form sent out to the 
following addresses obtained in the COMPAS database and Florida Corporation Website. 

o P.O. Box 2969 Lakeland, FL 33806 
• P.O. Box 429 Placida, FL 33946 
• P.O. Box 402 Placida, FL 33946 
• 4200 South Florida Ave. Lakeland, FL 33813 
o 437 South Central Ave. Lakeland, FL 33815 

Exhibit #3 is the Florida Corporation information regarding ownership of DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. 

Exhibit #4 is the current pharmacy inspection report dated 11/02/12. 

Exhibit #5 includes three (3) photographs of the vacant pharmacy business located at 437 S. Central Ave. in 
Lakeland, FL. These photographs were taken by Investigator SCOTT MARTIN on 05/30/1 3. 

Exhibit #6 is one (1) CD containing three (3) digital photographs. 

Exhibit #7 is the Evidence Control Form. One CD of the photographs has been entered into evidence in the 
Tampa ISU office. 

Exhibit #8 is the Letter of Representation from AS. WEEKLEY, Attorney, dated 06/19/1 3. 

Exhibit #9 is the Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form received 07/03/13. 

Exhibit #10 is the E-mail message sent to YOLANDA GREEN, Attorney for PSU. 

Interview of KAREN MCKOWN - Owner of People's Pharmacy ) 
People's Pharmacy 
4977 US Hwy 98 North 
Lakeland, FL 33809 
863-858-4444 

On 05/30/1 3, Investigator SCOTT MARTIN interviewed KAREN MCKOWN at 437 S. Central Ave. in Lakeland, 
FL. K. McKOWN said the owner of ORM ENTERPRISES, INC. is DUANE McKOWN, her ex-husband. K. 
McKOWN resigned from her position as President of DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. on 05/25/12 (Exhibit 3). K. 
McKOWN is no longer associated with DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. 

INV FORN 300, Revised 02/08, created 07/02 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE CASE MIJMBER: 201307692 

Interview of DUANE MeKOWN — Owner of DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. ) 
DUANE McKOWN 
P.O. Box402 
Placida, FL 33946 
863-712-4011 

On 05/30/13, Investigator SCOTT MARTIN interviewed DUANE McKOWN. D. McKOWN is the owner 
of DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. D. McKOWN said he is currently a licensed pharmacist and no longer 
owns any pharmacy business since his divorce from KAREN McKOWN. D. McKOWN said he did 
not notify the Florida Division of Corporations or the Board of Pharmacy of DRM ENTERPRISES' 
dissolution. D. McKOWN said he would consider the Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form that 
he received from the Tampa ISU office. 

On 07/03/1 3, Investigator MARTIN received the signed Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form 
from D. McKOWN. 

Investigator's : 
A Letter of Representation was received from D. McKOWN'S attorney, A.S. WEEKLEY, on 06/19/13. 
WEEKLEY needed clarification that D. McKOWN'S pharmacist license would not be affected if a 
Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form was signed for DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. WEEKLEY 
was provided information explaining the scope of this investigation was limited to the DRM 
ENTERPRISES, INC. pharmacy license. 

IV FORM 300, Revised 02/08, Created 07/02 

Page 4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Detail by Entity Name Page 1 of 2 

No Events No Name History 

Return to Search Results 

Detail by Entity Name 

Florida Profit Corporation 
DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. 

Filing Information 

Document Number 534597 
FEI/EIN Number 593054487 
Date Filed 11991 
State or Country FL 

Status ACTIVE 

Principal Address 
*37 SOUTH CENTRAL AVE 
LAKELAND, FL 33815 

Changed: 04/16/2007 

Mailing Address 

P0 BOX 2969 
LAKELAND, FL 33806-2969 

Changed: 04/29/2009 

Registered Agent Name & Address 
GUARD, JR., PIERCE J 
*200 SOUTH FLORIDA AVENUE 
LAKELAND, FL 33813 

Name Changed: 12/22/2009 

Changed: 12/22/2009 

Officer/Director Detail 

NONE 

Reports 

Report Year Filed Date 
2010 01/05/2010 
2011 06/14/2011 

2012 04/25/2012 

Document Images EXHIBIT# S 
-0 

5/29/2013 

jEntity Name Search 



L)etaii Dy Name Page 2 of 2 

05/25/2012 -- Off/Dir Resignation 

04/25/2012--ANNUAL REPORT 

06/14/2011 --ANNUAL REPORT 

01/05/2010--ANNUAL REPORT 
Home contact Us 

12/22/2009 --ANNUAL REPORT 

04/29/2009--ANNUAL REPORT 

04/07/2008 --ANNUAL REPORT 

04/16/2007 — ANNUAL REPORT 

04/20/2006--ANNUAL REPORT 

04/14/2005 --ANNUAL REPORT 

04/08/2004--ANNUAL REPORT 

04/11/2003--ANNUAL REPORT 

04/22/2002 --ANNUAL REPORT 

04/12/2001 --ANNUAL 

REPORT 

REPORT 

REPORT 

ANNUAL REPORT 

REPORT 

No Events No Name History 

Return to Search Results 

I I 
Doojma,t E-Filrflo Services 

I Help I 

© and Privacy Polidec 

State of Florida Department of State 

V 
http://search l/EntjtyName/domp-... 5/29/2013 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

in PDF format 
,— uJluhI"._II 

Viiw image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

Searches Forms 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

Help 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in POF format 

View image in PDF format 



2012 FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT FILED 
Apr 25, 2012 DOCUMENT# S34597 Secretary of State 

Entity Name: DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. 

Current Principal Place of Business: New Principal Place of Business: 

437 SOUTH CENTRAL AVE 
LAKELAND, FL 33815 US 

Current Mailing Address: New Mailing Address: 

P0 BOX 2969 
LAKELAND, FL 338062969 US 

FEI Number Applied For( I Number Not Applicable ( ) Caflificate of Status Desired 

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: Name and Address of New Registered Agent: 

GUARD, JR., PIERCE J 
4200 SOUTH FLORIDA AVENUE 
LAKELAND, FL 33813 US 

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both, 
in the State of Florida. 

SIGNATURE: 

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date 

OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS: 

ile: 
Name: MCKOWN, KAREN 
Address: 6744 CRESCENT WOODS CIR 
City-St-Zip: LAKEI.AND, FL 33813 us 

I hereby certify that the information indicated on this report or supplemental report is true and accurate and that my electronic 
signature shall have the same legal effect as if made under oath; that lam an officer or director of the corporation or the receiver 
or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 607, Florida Statutes; and that my name appears above or 
on an aftachment with all other like empowered. 

SIGNATURE: KAREN MCKOWN P 04/25/2012 
Electronic Signature of Signing Officer or Director Date - 



) 
(Address) 

200235122112 
(Address) 

• (City/State/ZiplPhone o 

0 PICK-UP WAIT MAIL OS/25/12——01020——013 **SS,30 

(Business Entity Name) 

______________________________________________ 

& 
(Document Number) 

' 
-an. r r' 

Certified Copies 

_______ 

Certificates of Status 

_______ 

¶1 t a n 
Special Instructions to Filing Officer ¶_ 0 

Office Use Only 



• - 

flLEU 
iCER I DIRECTOR RESIGNATION 

FOR A CORPORATION1J%2$M 25 

s'( S1M' 

i.______________________ sin as_____________ ue) 

01' \RM tnc 
(Nuni .W( UrtXwuUOnI 

%S 3 a corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
(I h,ctinicnt ' 

FILING FEE IS $35.00 

Make checks payable to Florida Department of Stale and mail to: 

Amendment SecIii'n 
Division ol Corporations 

1O. tIox 6327 
Tallahassee. I:Ic,rjdj 32314 

i 



COVER LETTER 

TO: Amendment Section 
Division of Corporations : 1 

DOCUMENT NUMBER:______________________________ 
The enclosed Resignation of Registered Agent lbr a Corporation and are submitted for filing. 

Please return all correspondence concerning this matter to the following: 

(Name S Pers 

anie ot rirn,/ ornpau(y) 

/ (Address) 

P/dJJia — 
ity/StaQand Zip Code) — 

For further injormation concerning this matter, please call: 

Jr 
(Name ol Person) (Area Code & Daytirbe Telephone Number) 

Enclosed is a check made payable to the Florida Departmcnt of State for $87.50 for an active corporation 
or $35.00 for an administratively dissolved. voluntarily dissolved or withdrawn corporation. 

Streci : 
Amendment Section 
Division of Corporations 
Clifton Building 
2661 Ecccutivc Center Circle 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

CR2IiCJ4b 104/12} 

Mailiur : 
Anicndineni Section 
Division ol'Corporations 
Post 111cc B0N 6327 
Tallahassee. FL 32314 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
UTINE LOC NEW CURRENTLY NOT G CKANGE OWNER fl 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. 

PERMIT NUMBER 
16061 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
/212012 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
MARTIN DRUGS 

DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

STREET ADDRESS 
437$. CENTRAL AVENUE 

TELEPHONE # EXT. 

CITY COUNTY 
LAKELAND 63 

STATE/ZIP 
33616 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LI C ENS E if 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/iNTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. 

Open 2. 
Close 3 

SATISFACTORY NIA YES 
I Rx departhient hours open 5 days for 40 hours per week. 64816-28.1081, F.A.C.I 

— 2 Pharmacy technicians properly identified end supervised. 64016-27.420, F.A.CJ — 

3 Pharmacist on duly when Rx departhient open. (84916-28.109, F.A.C.] K 

— 

4 Pi-opersignsdisplayed. 1485.025(7). 64B16-28.1D9(1), F.A.C.] 64916-281081, 164016-28.1035, F.A.C.] 64916-27.IOCI,F.A.C.3 
5 A verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to the patient or the patients agent. 64018-27.620(1), F.A.C.] 
6 Prescription department has convenient eink/njnnlng water. 64016-28.102(1). F.A.C.] 

7 Prescription department dean and safe. 164816-28.102(4), F.A,C.] 

— 

6 Proper equipment and references as required. 64B16-28.1D2(5)(a), FAG.] — 

9 Medication properly labeled. 465.0255, F.S.] 64816-28.108, F,A.C.) 

10 Expired medications removed from the shelves. 64816-26.110, F.A.C.] 
— [ 11 COt Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. 786.101, P.S.] 84816-27.302, F.A.C.) 
— 12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. {465.022(4), F.S.) 1 — — 13 Prescriptions hate the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. .O4(lXc) 6. F.S.I I64B16-28.140(3)(b). F.A.C.I — 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64916—27.800, FAG.] 
— 

15 All controlled substance prescriptions contain information required. 893.04, F.Sj . — 

16 Prescriptions for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Departhient-approved vendor and the quantity end date 
meet the requirements of 1456.42(2), F.S.]. 

17 Prescriptions may not be filled in excess of one year or six months for controls from the date written. (893.04(1 )(g). F.S.] 164016-27.211. F.A.C.J 
— 18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis end available forinspection. (893.07(1 fla), F.S.] 

19 DEA 222 orderfoons properly completed. 893.07. F.B.I 
i: : 

20 Controlled substance records and Rxtntormaton in computer system is retrievable. I2ICFR 1306.22] 164B16-28.140, F.A.C.] '5?,] i. 'C 21 led substance records maintained for 4 years. 1465.022(1 2)(b). ES.] 
22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. 21CFR 1306.22(b)(3)] 64918-28.140(3)(b). F.A.C.] 

— 23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescriptions within 24 hours or closed business on next business day of teaming of instance, 
Reports indude all required information. (465.01 5(3), F.S.] 

24 Record oftheff orsignificant loss of all controlled substances is being maintained and is being reported tothe sheriff within 24 hours of discovery. 893.07(5). F.S.] 465.015, F.S.] VF J 25 Pharmacy is reporting to the PDMP 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), ) M 
F 

26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler pemi'd is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 
1499.0121(14), ES.] 

27 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. 64918-27.210, F.A.C.3 N I 
F 28 Compounding records properly maintained. 64816-27.700, F.AC.I* 

29 Unit dose records property maintained, 1465.016(1)0), 1 64816-28.118, F.A.C.I 
3D Pedigree records rethevable. 184F-12.012(3Ra)2.. (d), FAG.] 

I 

— Note: If establishment is engaged in /entersl compounding, a separate inspection form should be cornpleted 
Remarks: This pharmacy is closed and the building is closed. Most of the equipment and furnishings have been removed. According to Gerald Ainyot, a pharmacist who worked part time at Martin Drugs stated the pharmacy closed in February 2012. 

I have read and have had this asd the laws and regulations concerned herein explained, and do affirm that the information given herein is Vue and correct to toe test of my knowledge. I have received a copy of 
the Ucensee 811 ol Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT N/A 

re /Sr. Pharmacist 

File # 6578 

lnsp# 105125 

FLORIDA DEPARrMENT OF 

REALT 
S. DOH.STATE.FL. US 

institutional Representative — 
NV 359 Revised Il, l, 10/10, 10109, 5/08, 12/02. 12100 

11-02-2012 
Date 

ID ti122 



c27 

,- 

EXHIBIT# 





. .- — - 

Number: PH 2013M7692 

Patient: N/A 

Subject ORM ENTERPRISES, INC 

Investigator: Scott . ISII 

H CD — ' Photographs 

Exhibit # 6 

Page 29 

I 
I I of 2 

T - 



A
 Y

E
. 

T
 

H
O

M
E

 H
E

A
LT

H
C

A
R

E
 

C
E

N
T

E
R

 

E
IG

H
B

O
R

 
I 

I 

--
 

- 







Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of l people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. John K. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the healthiest State in the Nation 

Case Number 20 3-07692 

EVIDENCE CONTROL FORM 

Office Receipt I 4 7 / g 

Owners Name 

Address: 

a Phone: 

Obtained By. Scott Martin. 51] Phone 813-871 7425 

Address: 6800 N. Dale Mabrv Hwy. Ste. 220: Tamna, Ft. 33614 

Received By Date 

Address Phone 

y State Zip 

Destroyed By 
Item ] 23456 

Name_________ 
Witness_______ 
Remarks 

Date 

NV FORJvl 342. Created 10/02 

EXMISfl 

nsJ ri 

Rick Scott 
Govemor 

item # Quantity Description 
] (one) CD 1 1 (one) Compact Disc containing 3 (three) of abandoned y 

4- 
5- . 

6- 
I hereby acknowledge that the above list represents all property impounded by me in the official p ormance of my duty an 
investigator for the Department of Health. 

f 
i&tf— 

I 

2 

RELEASED BY 

Name: 5c 

RECEIVED BY 
I 

Signature: 77 
PURPOSE OF CHANGE OF CUSTODY 

Name: Name: , 

3 Signature: 
Name: 

Signature: 
Name: , 

4 Signature: 
Name: 

. 

Signature: 
Name: 

5 Signature: 
Name: 

Signature: 
Name: 

, 

6 Signature: 
Name: 

Signature: 
Name: 

Returned To 
item 1 2 3 4 5 6 

Finat Disposition 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


07103/2013 15:46 Hele Pa%lowski 1155 /004 

M..Wccrj:.v: 
C I KIsccwttu<J Iti 

3. oo.uwi. 

i 
— 

A'ITC)RNE\S AT 

- 

.lrsN C:A 

AS. ), 

U.S..MA1L 

20fl 

M.Mttrtin 
I 

I IOfldd Depanitnt ot I lcaJth 
IJ:wy., Suitc 220 

Fl. 33614 

ORNI 1w. 
J No 1.cOol 

201. 0'692 

EX!IT# 

NULIH I • 'yE JOt) I FAtcli'\ l 3.,tD2 
1,866) (Tori. FRill 

. (813) 22J -:1' lioNt). I: 155( 

:EtttilASOd .p}thS 'find. .thc V I 6061 for. 
DR \'I J tia 'pi kit ii haS IXLfl c\tLlIted 1)Uant. 1 hi is on 
tic hsl F F ii cciwn alici r'u k rhont ' isJ indiiig di a it ill no efU ot on Mr 

flh•ar;nacO,'.t 

ft ink (31 III etiopt I duon ni ntaucr and he as'ui ed o is in reci proci ts 

U you U 1\t dn) qucstlons pk. 1C& it c 

l f i IRon 



07/0312013 15:46 Hale Pahtwsld 221 1155 P.002/004 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh, 
Petitioner, 

v. DOH Case No. 

DRM Enterprises, Inc., Pharmacy 
Respondent. 

VOLUNTARY REUNOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent DRN Enterprises, ., Pharmacy, license No, 16061, hereby voluntarily 

relinquishes Respondent's license to practice pharmacy in the State of Florida and states as 

follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment shall be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license 

pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. As with any disciplinary action, this 

relinquishment will be reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank as disciplinary 

action. Licensing authorities in other states may impose discipline in their jurisdiction 

based on discipline taken in Florida. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacy in the State 

of Florida. 

INV FORM 42$, Revised 04-13, Created IC 





0710312013 1155 P.0041004 

. 

Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the 

Board, or any of members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 
Cr 

DATED this 

_________ 

day of 1 £ 2013. 

DRM Enterprises, Inc. 

STATEOF_______ 
COLJNTYOF 

Before me, personally appeared Pusse&.. k4 . whose identity is 

known to me or who produced Fi 1 C7 j3° (type of identification) and 

who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

_____ 

day of Z1. , 2013. 

My Ion Expires: i' / 

Notary Public Stale of Florida 
T 

My 00925497 
Expires I 13 



PAUL NI. WEEKLEY 
CI-IRISTOPI-FER J. IULTE 

JODY M. VALDES 
J. TRAVIS GODwIN 

IA FACSIMILE — 813-871-7421 
VJA U.S. MAIL 

July 3,2013 

JESSICA D. DARENEAU 

MEGAN B. MAZZONE 
MARSHALL D. SCHAAP 

AS. "Gus" WEEKLEY, JR., M.D. 

JUL E 2313 

Mr. Scott M. Martin 
investigator Specialist II 
Florida Department of Health 
6800 N. Dale Mabry Hwy., Suite 220 
Tampa, FL 33614 

Re: DRM Enterprises, inc. 
Pharmacy License No 16061 
Case Number: 2013-07692 

Dear Mr. Martin: 

Enclosed please find the Voluntary Relinquishment of Pharmacy License No. 16061 
DRJvI Enterprises, Inc. It has been executed by Duane Russeu McKown. This is submitted 
behalf of Mr. McKown after our telephone understanding that it will have no effect on 
McKown's Pharmacist License. 

Thank you for your cooperation in this matter and please be assured of ours in reciprocity 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, , 
Jr., M.D. 

ASW:np &MaS: 

Enclosure 

cc: DRM Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a 
Duane McKown 

Wilson Drug 

1635 NORTH TAMPA STREET 
I 

SUITE 100 TAMPA, FLORIDA 33602 
(866) 674-2127 (TOLL FREE) (813)221-1154 (TELEPHONE) 1(813)221-1155 (FAcSINII!i) .com 31 

\VEEKLEY SCHULTE 
I 
VALDES 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

for 
on 

Mr. 





3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing pharmacy immediately 

upon executing this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from 

the practice of pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a pubflc meeUng, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become public record and 

remain public record and that information is immediately accessible to the public. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating 

this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this 



Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the 

Board, or any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DATED this — day of 

_________________________, 

2013. 

DRM Enterprises, Inc. 

STATE OF 
1YOF 
Before me, personally appeared u a LaSS _ 04 c , whose identity is 

known to me orwho produced l ht- �7 (3° (type of identiflcation) and 

who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of . 
My Commission Expires: 

1 

Cf / 



Blank lof'l 
Agett, Babette 

To: Green, Yolonda 

Cc: Martin, Scott M. 

Subject: Voluntary Relinquishment 

'Volando - please see attached Voluntary Relinquishment for case #: 2013-07692 / bRM Enterprises. This was an 
abandoned pharmacy. The owner finally agreed to sign the yR. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to 
contact Scott Martin, the investigator, at 813-671-7425. Thank you. 

Babette Smith Agett, RN, 
Investigation. Supercisor 
DO!! I MQA / ! / Tampa 
680(1 N. .Daic lvi abry rhvij; Ste. 220 
Tampa FL ,3614 
813-673-4798; Fax: 823-871-7421 

Customer Satisfaction Survey 

Mission: The mission of the Department of Health is to protect , promote & improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, county & community 
efforts. 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from state officials regarding state business are public records, which are 
available to the public and media upon request. Your email communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

There have been changes to the license renewal process. Please visit to learn more. 

7/3/20 13 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201215204 

JOSHUA STEPHEN EZZO, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: JOSHUA STEPHEN EZZO 
532 BLAIRMORE BLVD 
ORANGE PARK, FL 32073 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is not required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama 
City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000.. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

Executive Director 
DARD OF PHARMACY 

lorida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TtNITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 . FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Mission 
To pitted, proreote & impmve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & ccntnunlty off orb. 

HEALTH 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Swgeon General & Seaetary 

Vision: To be the Heafthlat Stale In the Nation 

TO: 

MEMOR AND UM 

Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Judson Seamy, General Counsel 
RE: Voluntary Relinquishment 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Joshua Stephen Ezzo, RPT 

DOH Case Number 2012-15204 

DATE: July 16. 2013 4-ô 
Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: 
Subject's Address of 
Record: 
Enforcement Address: 

Joshua Stephen Ezzo 
532 Blairmore Blvd 
Orange Park, FL 32073 
532 Blairmore Blvd 
Orange Park, FL. 32073 
32450 Rank: RPT 
33194 

Initial Licensure Date: 7/20/ 2010 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): 
Prior Discipline: 
Probable Cause Panel: 

Pro Se 

Department Of Health/Office Of General Counsel 
Memorandum to the Board 
Voluntary Relinquishment 
Administrative Complaint 
Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 
Probable Cause Memorandum 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 

florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel • Pmseaidon SeMces Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, C-65 • Tallahassee. FL 32399-1 701 

Express mall address: 2585 Merthants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: 850,245-4444 • FAX )245-4683 

www.FloildasHealth.com 
TWflTER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOKFtDeparmtentolHealth 
YOLJTIJBE: fldoh 

Subject's License No: 
Licensure File No: 

456.072(1)(x), FS (2012) 
None 

March 28, 2013; Weizer & Meshad 

Subject's Attorney: 
Complainant/Address: 
Materials Submitted: 

DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES: 



FILED 
r OF 

d$ HIALTh CLERK 

tLTh, —13 

P 

J oshua Stephen Eno, license No. 32450, hereby voluntarily 

relinquishes Respondent's license to practice as a pharmacy technidan in the State of Hortda 

and states as Follows-. 

1. Respondent's purpose In executing this Voluritai-y Relinquishment is to avoid 

further admlnlstradve action with respect this cause. Respondent that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment shall be construed as dlsdpithary action against Respondents license 

pursuant to Section 456.072(lXf), Florida Stathtes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply far licensure as a pharmacy technician 

In the of florida. 

3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing as a pharmacy technician 

immediately upon this Voluntary inquishment. Respondent further agrees to 

refrain from the practice of pharmacy until such time this Voluntary Relinquishment is 

presented to the Board and the Board issues,a written final order In this matter. 

4. . In artier to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board In 

a pubUc meeting, Respondent, being fully d of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

Offd £12Z 206 VO€(XYD )IRd 05Ut4o UOIUfl JflSAA ELO&L ILO 



waives the statutory privdege Of cohfidentlallty of Section 456.07a(ib), Statutes, and 

wLjWes a determination oT probable caJse, by the Probable or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant th 456 073(4), lorIda regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and i other information obb(ned 

pursuant to the Depatrnent's Investigation In the above-styled action. By signing this 

watver, Respondent understands that the record and wmplalnt become public record and 

remain public record and that information Is immediately accessible to the public. Section 

456.073(10), Florida SthWtes. 

Upon the Boards accepthrice of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek Judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Retinquisi-irnent and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating 

this luntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear Its own attorney's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

DOH v. JOSHUASTEPHEN EZZO, R.PT., Case 2012-15204 2 . , 

XRd ebuern uoiun iwan JescicA Lfl7IL /fl 



all tBè 

the Boa?d's 

by the shall not prejudice at predude the 

f. if h à'S, i 
proceedings if thmis of thrn ndt by Boaftl 

DATED 

________ 

of_______________________ 

STATE 
COUNTY OF: . —. 

me, personalLy appeared S. Et-'trc 
(type of and who, under 

oath, that his signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed me 
this It dayof 

,2013, 

My Commission Exphts 
NOTV( PUBLIC 

Vth 
- 

____ 

- 

DOH V. JOSHUA STEPHEN EZZO, Case No. 2012-15204 3 

O UOIUfl 11D81D rb1fl flfl?tt l 

materials fil , 
Voluntary Relinquishment. dit 
Relinquhhment Gther Materials 

E1O'àW, cfr an? iS Of thS 

I 

known to me by 
whose identify Is 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 9 
CASE NO. 2012-15204 

JOSHUA STEPHEN EZZO, LP..T., 

RESPONDENT. 

_I 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitionex, Department of Health (Department), by and 

thiough its undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint 

before the Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Joshua Stephen Ezzo, 

R.P.T., and in support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to SectIon 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

registered pharmacy technician within the state of Florida, having been 

issued Ucense number RPT 32450. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 532 lalrmore Boulevard, 

Orange Park, Florida 32073. 

4. On or about June 21, 2012, in the Circuit Court of the Fourth 

Judicial Circuit, in and for Clay County, Florida, in case number 2012CF- 

000938, Respondent pled guilty to one count of Grand Theft and one 

count of Dealing in Stolen Property. 

.5. Respondent failed to timely report, in writing, the above- 

referenced pleas to the Board of Pharmacy. 

6. Section 456.072(1)(x), Florida Statutes (2012), provides 

failing to report th the board, or the department if there is no board, in 

writing within 30 days after the licensee has been convicted or found guilty 

of, or entered a plea of b contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a 

crime In any jurisdiction, constitutes grounds hr discipline. 

7. Respondent failed to timely report to the board in writing the 

pleas in the above-referenced criminal case in paragraph four within thirty 

(30) days after his pleas were entered by the court. 

8. Based on the, foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

456.072(1)(x), Florida Statutes (2012), falling to report to the board, or 

the department if there is no board, in writing within 30 days after the 

I v. )oshua Stephen Era, RPT 2 

Case No. 2012-13204 



licensee has been convicted or found guilty of, or entered a plea of to 
contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order Imposing one or more of the foflowing penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restiictlon of 

practice, Imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

blued or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED Ut 

______day 

of 

________________£ 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

istant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0098772 
FlorIda Department of Health 

FILED Office of the General Counsel 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 

CLERK AngelSanderS Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
DATE MAR 2 8 2013 

Telephone: (850)245-4640 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: judson_searcy@doh.state.fi.us 

PCP Members: L/.J 22r 

DOH v. Joshua Stephen Eno, RPT 3 

Case No. 2012-15204 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted 
in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to 
be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to 
present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses 
and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecurn issued or his or 
her behalf If a hearing Is 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent Is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disdplinary matter, which may Indude attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DOM V. Joshua Stephen Eno, RFT 4 

Case Nc. 2012-15204 



Mission: 
To protect promote & improve The health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

1 IEALTh 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Seaetary 

July 16, 2013 

Joshua S Ezzo 
532 Blairmore Blvd 
Orange Park, FL 32073 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Re: DOH vs. Joshua Stephen Ezzo, RPT 
DOH Case Number: 2012-1 5204 

Dear Mr. Ezzo: 

I am in receipt of the settlement agreement executed by you on July 11, 2013, concerning the above 
referenced case. 

Our office is now making preparation for this settlement to be presented 
scheduled meeting of the Florida Board of Pharmacy. Please be advised your 

at the next regularly 
case will be set at the 

convenience of the Department and/or the Board and you will be notified of the date and time 
approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office. 

idson Searcy 
General Counsel 

JS/ab 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel Prosecution SeMoes Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: 8501245-4444• FAX 8501245.4683 

www.FioridasHealth.coivi 
ITTER:Healthyfl..A 

FACEBOOKFLDeparthientot}lealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

Sincei 



LQECflflN or 

00K v, Joshua , F*T Nb; 

Pt C$NLY I Of 

An of Ot isan doSt4l(v4th y&urthomey tite 
the Pmaeojtlnn Unli ol oddItäwphorta rithtlbjt USd at bf thiefóvlfl, 

1, I do d 
I wil( be to thSmIt in bY 

the cGTflpiY2irIt tothØ . - 

OPTION 2 not @10 at tha Cotnpthint end my rlgM in objed 
or lobe heard. 0 ueáI Clot thà flut4l nrtI*t Sthfutwd. 

OPTIONS,_______ I do thnlâihéd t pleijit aS t$uait 1k S be cdfiSidfld 
& forforn,ai hewing, 12d%O(2)(a) and Fland* Skatütes, Low Judge 
appointed by the sion I Sk1p0t4 ls fóIlbWInq of le AdmISatniSO 
Complaint 

In addition to the above atL.otlon, I duo elect the 

I accept the ternie of this Settlement Agreement, have slgne4 and em rewmlnB the Setiemant Agrsernsnf or I 

an, interested In settling this cees, 

I do not wish to continue practicing, have signed and returned the voluntary relinquishment of teensure lone, If 
It has been provided. 

Regardless of which option I have selected, I tinderetend that I wilt be given of time, date, and place 
when this matter th to be considered by the Board for Final Action. Mediation under Section 1ZO.573, Florida 
Statutes. Is not le in this matter. (Please sign and cornpleje all the Information belo .) 

aasponden". ?J.m. . 

- Address: 

Lic, No., 

Phone 

STATE OF iDA 
OF c1 

Before me, pereonsily appeareà&acLz. 1. Identity i known to ma or by 

(type of Identllicalion) end who, ad4nowIadgeE that his/her signature 

appears above, Sworn to or offlimed by AMant before rue this I 

I 
rids My Commisan E$lrsa 

A?flJWi 
T4 

—7 
TOMP.TAN 
Commlsslon'# I) 973949 
ExpireeApiii 182014 

-It 
! 

Type or Prtnt Minis 
PLEASE MAIL FOR FAX COMPLSTED FORM TO; Judson Searcy, Mel asnt General Couns.i, II, Prosecution Swvlces 
Unit, 4052 Bald Cyprsaa Way, Bin C-Ga, Tallahassee, Florida 373B9-.3266. Telephons Numben FAX (860) 246- 
4683; Tho 1400-966-BflI. 

VOO!LOOd £LBZ 208 )IJEd 36UBJO UOIUfl )E4SAA 

Fax No. 

.2013. 



MEMORAI'WUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Joshua Stephen Ezzo, RPT. 
Case Number: 2012-15204 

MEMBERS: Gavin Meshad and Michele Weizer 
DATE OF PCP: March 28, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-i ....uu.....a._...................... _••.............u.......u... ......_.. 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise filly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 456.072(lYx). Florida Statutes, ) 
Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

- Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

$}z/t ttOjf u 
C air, Probable Ca e Panel Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Date of Complaint: Case Number: 
CONSUMER SERVICES October 22, 2012 2012-1 5204 

Subject: 
JOSHUA STEPHEN EZZO, RPT 
532 Blairmore Blvd 

Orange Park, FL 32073 

(904) 469-9201 

Source: 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL 
4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Tallahassee! FL 32399 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RPT 2208 32450 Registered Pharmacy Pharmacy January 11, 2013 

Technician 

Period of Investigation: 
10/22/12-01/11/13 

Type of Report: 
FINAL 

Alleged Violation: s. 456.072(1 )(dd): Violating any provision of this chapter, the applicable practice act, or any rules 
adopted! s. 465.016(1)(f), FS: Having been convicted or found guilty, regardless.. 465.016(1)(o), FS: Failing to report to 
the department any licensee under chapter... 465.016(1)(r), ES: Violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456... : This investigation is predicated on the receipt of information from Department of Health/Office of General 
Counsel (Ex. #1, Case Summary and attachments) which alleges EZZO failed to report a criminal conviction. Certified court 
documents received from Clay County Clerk of Court show that EZZO entered a plea of guilty to the offense of Grand Theft 
(s. 812.014, FS) and Dealing in Stolen Property (s. , FS) on 06/21/12. EZZO failed to report this conviction within 
30 days (Ex. # 1, Case Summary and attachments). 

EZZO was notified of this complaint by regular mail dated 10/22/12 (Ex. #2). Forwarded with this letter were copies of the 
Case Summary and complaint (Ex. # 1 ).On 12/19/12 a Subject notification letter was mailed certified to his address of 
record (Domestic Return Receipt/Green card returned on 12/26/12 signed by EZZO) and Accurint address: 198 Arora Blvd, 
#2208, Orange Park, FL 32073-3287 (Domestic Return receipt/Green card returned on 12/26/12 signed by Subject). 

DOH computer information query conducted 01/11/13 revealed EZZO is duly licensed to practice as a Registered 
Pharmacy Technician in the State of Florida and that his license is in CLEAR/ACTIVE status. 

No patient(s) were identified! thus patient notification was not required. 

EZZO does not appear to be represented by counsel as of the date of this report. 

EZZO has not responded to this investigator, in 1 as of the date of this . 
Related Case: 

Investigation Specialist II 
- 

Approved By/D t 
Shane Walters / OMC Manager I 

Distribution: Legal/Consumer Services Unit 
Page 1 



DOH IVE REPORT CASE NUMBER RPT 2012-15204 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER PAGE 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 
Summary of Records 3 : 
Interview/Statement of DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH (Source) 3 
Interview/Statement of EZZO (Subject) 3 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary, complaint, and Court documents from the Clay County 4-22 

2. EZZO Notification Letter 23-29 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER RPT 2012-1 5204 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF RECORDS 

Exhibit #1 is a Case Summary, complaint and documents from Clay County Clerk of Court. Certified court 
documents received from Clay County Clerk of Court show that EZZO entered a plea of guilty to the offense 
of Grand Theft (s. 812.014! FS) and Dealing in Stolen Property (s. 812.019, FS) on 06/21/12. EZZO failed to 
report this conviction within 30 days (Ex. # 1, Case Summary and attachments). 

STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH/Office of General Counsel-- Source 

Address of Record: 4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

No additional information was received from the Source. 

STATEMENT OF JOSHUA STEPHEN EZZO, RPT-- Subiect 

Address of Record: 532 Blairmore Blvd 

Orange Park, FL 32073 
(904) 469-9201 

EZZO has not responded to this investigator, in writing, as of the date of this report. 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Suigeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201310982 

MALISSA SUE BENDER, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: MALISSA SUE BENDER 
181 SW PALM DRIVE APT. 202 
PORT ST. LUCIE, FL 34986 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is not required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City 
Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

Executive Director 
(/èOARD OF PHARMACY 
/ Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance ITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHeatth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



HEALTh 
Vision: To be the State in the Nation 

Malissa Sue Bender 
181 SW Palm Drive, Apt 202 
Port St Lucie, FL 34986 
181 SW Palm Drive, Apt 202 
Port St. Lucie, FL 34986 
231 SW Palm Dr, Apt 108 
Port St Lucie, FL 34986 
37251 Rank: RPT 
38283 

4/4/20 1 
No 

No 

No 

456.072(1)(z)(dd), FS 

465.016(1)(d)2.(e)(i)(m), FS 

None 

Waived 

Pro Se 

Department Of Health/Consumer Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-75 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

Memorandum to the Board 
Motion For Final Order 
Voluntary Relinquishment 
Notification Letter 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel -Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65W Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 
PHONE: 850/245-4444-FAX 85012454683 

lth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACE SO K F oepa rtmentofl-l ea lth 

YOUTtJBE: fldoh 

MissIon: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

TO: 

MEMORANDUM 
Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM: Michael Lawrence, Jr., Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Voluntary Relinquishment 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Malissa Sue Bender, R.P.T. 

DOH Case Number 2013-10982 

DATE: August 1. 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: 
Subject's Address of 
Record: 
Enforcement Address: 

Subject's Additional 
Address: 
Subject's License No: 
Licensure File No: 

Initial Licensure Date: 
Board Certification: 
Required to Appear: 
Current IPN/PRN Contract: 
Allegation(s): 

Prior Discipline: 
Probable Cause Panel: 
Subject's Attorney: 
Complainant/Address: 

Materials Submitted: 



Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1-3 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

CASE NO. 2013-10982 

MAUSSA SUE BENDER, R.P.T., 
Respondent. 

_I 
MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER 

BASED UPON A VOLUNTARY R.EUNOUISHMENT OF UCENSE 

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, by and through its undersigned counsel, 

and moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order in the above- 

styled cause on a date and time that has been determined and noticed by 

the Board. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner would state the following: 

1. On or about July 15, 2013, a Uniform Consumer Complaint was 

filed with the Department of Health, alleging that the Subject violated the 

provisions of Chapter 456 or Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. In lieu of undergoing further disciplinary proceedings, the 

Respondent returned an executed Voluntary Relinquishment of his/her 

license. 

3. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case shall be furnished to the Board to 



establish a prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Uniform Consumer Complaint. 

WHEREFORE the parties respectfully request the Board of Pharmacy 

enter a Final Order incorporadng the terms of the Voluntary 

Relinquishment of Licensure. 

Assistant General Couns 
Fla. Bar No. 0011265 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 x8199 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: michael_lawrence@doh.state.fl.us 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing has been provided by U.S. certified mail this 2 day of 

A 2013, to Malissa Bender, 231 SW Palm Drive, 

Apt 108, Port St Lucie, FL 34986. 



FILED 
DEPARTMENTOF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK J4nge(Sai"frrs 
DATE AUG 0 1 i 

STATE OF FLORIDA - 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh, 

Pet itio.ncr, 

v. I Case Number: 2013- 10982 
MALISSA SUE BENDER, PiT 

Respondent. 

/ 
VOLUNTARY RELU4OUJSHMENT OP LICENSE 

Respondent MALISSA SUE . license number I , hereby voluntarily relinquishes 

Respondent's license to practice Pharmacy Technician in die State of Florida and states as 

follows:. 

I. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid further 

administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that acceptance by the Board of 

Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be construed as disciplinary action 

against Respondent's license pursuant to section (1) (0. Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a Reaistered Pharmacy Technician ;n 

the State of Florida, 

3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing as a Rcaistered Phannacy Technidw 

immediately upon executing the Votuntaty Relinquishment. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in a public 

meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the caisequences of so doing, hereby waives the y 
privilege of confidentiality of Section ,073(10), Florida Statutes, and waives a determination of probable 

cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department when , pursuant to Section 456.073(4), 

Florida Statutes, regarding die case, the Investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other 

information obtained pursuant to the Department's investigation in the action. By this 

INY I 425 REVISED 06/00 12/07, REVISED 08/07, CREATED 11/06 



waiver, Respondent understands that the record and case become public record and remain public record and 

that information is immediately accessibic to the public, pursuant to Section 456.073 (10) Florida Statutes. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment Respondent agrees to waive 

all rights to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the validity of, this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and of the Final Order of tlic Board incorporating this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary 

Relinquishrncnt, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs Mated to the prosecution orcjefeese of 
this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondont in ction with the Board's consideration of this Voluntary 

Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and other related materials by the 

Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or any of its members, from fUrther participation, 

consideration, or resolution of these proceedings if the terms of is Voluntary Relinquishmem are riot 

accepted by the Board. 

DATED this 13. 

STATE OF 
MALISSA SUE BENDER 

COUNTY OFsr-LzItro 
peared MALISSA SUE RENDER ,whose identity is known tome by 

_____________________________ 

of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges that her ure appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me v ,20J3. 

My Commission Expires: 

L Corn mSlbn U EE 
E,ptrBs May 23,2016 j 

INV 'URN 425 06/08 12/07, REVISED 08/07, cREATED 11/06 



: 
To protect promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through inte9rated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Malissa Bender 
231 SW Palm Dr#108 
Pod St Lucie, FL 34986 

Re: DOH vs. Malissa Sue Bender, R.P.T. 
DOH Case Number: 201 3-1 0982 

Dear. Ms. Bender: 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

We are in receipt of your executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. 
the Voluntary Relinquishment of License form you agreed to the following: 

As you are aware by signing 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against your license, 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes: 

• Voluntarily relinquishing your Florida pharmacy license may have an effect on pharmacy licenses 
- you may hold in other states. 

If this is not what you understood, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 850-245-4444. 
Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of Pharmacy will take up your 
request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their next regularly scheduled meeting. You are not 
required to attend the meeting. 

ML/ab 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel' ProsecuUon Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way! Bin 0-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 ' FAX 850/245-4683 

.com 
TWI1TER:HeaIthyFLA 1ealth 

VOUTUBE: tidoh 

HEALTh 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naflon 

August 1,2013 

Assistant General 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: West Palm Beach Date of Case: 7/15/13 Case Number: 2013-10982 
Subject: MALISSA SUE BENDER, RPT Source: DEPT. OF HEALTHJCONSUMER SERVICES 
181 SW Palm Dr., Apt. 202* UNIT (CSU) 
Port Saint Lucie, FL 34986 
(772) 626-3014 
Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RPT 37251 Registered Pharmacy Technician Pharmacy 7/23/20 13 
Period of lnvestigation: 7/22/13 — 7/23/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL 
Alleged Violation: F.S. 456.072(1 )(z)(dd); 465.016(1 )(d)2.(e)(i)(m)-Failure to perform any statutory/legal obligation; 
Impaired from alcohol/drugs/other; Prescription/dispensing outside professional practice; Violating any provision/rule 
Synopsis: This SUPPLEMENTAL report is predicated upon receipt of the Voluntary Relin4uishment form 
executed by BENDER on 7/22/13 (EX# S-i). 

Additionally on 7/22/13, CVS Regional Loss Prevention Manager ADALBERT MARTINEZ was 
interviewed by Investigator SENIOR via telephone (954-649-2452), essentially confirming the details 
reported in the police report are accurate. On 6/7/13 a patient's prescription was filled for 30 Oxycodone 
pills. On 7/10/13 when the patient presented to pick up that prescription, the pills could not be found. There 
was no eye witness or surveillance footage available. MARTINEZ' internal investigation entailed his reviewS 
of staffing schedules for the date the prescription was filled (6/7/13). He intended on interviewing all staff 
present that day. BENDER happened to be the first person MARTINEZ interviewed. BENDER admitted to 
taking the filled patient's prescription. BENDER detailed that she had a neighbor who had recently been 
diagnosed with cancer and BENDER wanted to help her find pain relief. On 6/7/13 BENDER saw the 
opportunity and removed the vial of filled Oxycodone (30 count) from the "waiting bin" area of the 
pharmacy. BENDER placed the vial in her pocket, went home and reportedly gave the neighbor the vial. 

During questioning, MARTINEZ asked BENDER if there were any other missing medications they should 
know about. BENDER then further admitted that around 6/20/13 she took an entire stock bottle of 120 count 
Hydrocodone from the shelf, placed it in her pocket, and took it home, again reportedly for the neighbor. 
MARTINEZ confirmed that the pharmacy had not been aware of the missing bottle of Hydrocodone at that 
point. Along with the Pharmacy Supervisor, an inventory of Hydrocodone was conducted and a great deal of 
Hydrocodone was med missing. This led to the ffirther investigation and arrest of a second Pharmacy 
Technician. MARTINEZ provided a copy of BENDER's written statement regarding the above details, as 
well as a Promissory Note completed by BENDER, and medication pricing documents (EX#S-4). 

EXHIBITS 
S-l Voluntary Relinquishment form executed by BENDER 7/22/13 p.2-3, 
S-2 BENDER's wallet RPT license, obtained at time of yR (7/22/13) p.4 
S-3 Copy of email to appropriate counsellDOH personnel, dated 7/23/13 S 
S-4 BENDER's written statement and additional documentation, provided by CVS.. ..p.6-l3 

*BENDER advises her current address is: 231 SW Palm Dr., Apt 108, Port St. Lucie, FL 34986 2 
— 

Related Cases: 2013-10988 

ate 

AMY SENIOR, INVESTIGATOR, W1-89 IN AGER, WI-1Q 

Distribution: HQ/ISU JUL 242013 

DOH/MQA 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. DOH Case Number: 2013- 10982 

MALISSA SUE BEMDER, RPT 

Respondent. 
/ 

VOLUNTARY ISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent MALJSSA SUE , license number RPT , hereby voluntarily relinquishes 

Respondent's license to practice as a Registered Pharmacy Technician in the State of Florida and states as 

follows: 

Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid further 

administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that acceptance by the Board of 

Pharmacy (hereinafler the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be construed as disciplinary action 

against Respondent's license pursuant to section 456.072(1) (0. Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a Registered Pharmacy Technician in 

the State of Florida. 

3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing as a Registered Pharmacy Technician 

immediately upon executing the Voluntary Relinquishment. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in a public 

meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statutory 

privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and waives a determination of probable 

cause. by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), 

Florida Statutes, regarding the casc, the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other 

information obtained pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

425 06/05 12/07, P.EVtSED 08/07, CREATED 



ier, Respondent understands that the record and case become public record and remain public record and 

that information is immediately accessible to the public, pursuant to Section 456.073 (10) Florida Statutes. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent a&ees to waive 

all rights to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the validity of, this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Boards acceptance of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own s fees and costs related to the prosecution or defense of 

this matter 

, Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and other related materials by the 

Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or any of its members, from further participation, 

consideration, or resolution of these proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not 

accepted by the Board. 

DATEDthis 

________ 

dayof 13. 

MALISSA SUE BENDER 
STATE OF — 
COUNTY 
Before me, arsona,lly appeared MALLSSA SUE BENDER , whose identity is known to me by 8 - 

of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges that her 
signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me 

_______ 

ay of 
13. 

NOTA Y PLmLIC 
My Commission Expires: - 

S 
EE 198446 18 

Tiw ' 

/flO :2/07, REVISELt 08/07. rREATED 



C'r\ \I-Q opcL 
Gec' 

Ck2P 

. 
Received 

3 fJUL 24 

4-c 
* 

HQ 

QA 

V 



Senior, Amy 
From: Senior, Amy 
Sent: Tuesday, July 23, 2013 9:52 AM 
To: Green, Yolonda; Friedberg, Jenifer 
Cc: Miller, Michelle; Ferguson, Christopher K; Summer, Bonnie 
Subject: VR 

Attachments: vr-0723201 3094200.pdf 

Please find attached executed VR 
RE: 2013-10982 

vr-0723201309420 
0.pdf (91 KS) 

Amy SenIor, CT1s1 
Medical Quality Assurance Investigator 
Department of Health 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance 
Investigative Services Unit 
900 S. US Highway One, Suite 207 
Jupiter, FL 33477 
Direct# (561) 741-4583 
Fax # (561) 741-4581 
There have been changes to the license itnewal process. Please visit www CEAtRenewal com to learn more. 

customer Satisfaction Survey 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 
Mission: to protect, promote & improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, 
county, & community efforts. 

Values: I CARE (Innovation, Collaboration, Accountability, Responsiveness, Excellence) 
Please : Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from 
state officials regarding state business are public records available to the public & media upon 
request. Your email communications may be subject to public disclosure. 

* 



NED 01:00 PM CVS 
CVS0305—Oi. 
Ver. 1.15 

,4. 

S F 

Employee Maintçnance 
343 0608 .001 

07/10/13 
08:57 AM 

Name MALISSA 

35( 020 
PHARMACY TECHNIC IAN I L'tACY 
FT 

Emp 0937266 / 
Title Cosie 
Title Desc 
Home Dept. # 89 
Dept Description 
Ft/Pt 
Date 09/C 
Date 
Rate Effective 01/C 
Next Rev4.ew 02/J 
Service mate 02/1 

BENDER 

SSN 
Address 
City 
State 

Record Status A 

EMBER STQL 
P(RT ST.LUCIE 
FT 

r 
ELIGIBIL 
Vacation 
Holiday 
Funeral 

Zip 31 
Birth Date 
Current Statt 

LOCAL INFORMATION: 

4/2011. 
9/2011 
6/2013 
7/2 014 
7/20 10 

0) 

) 

953— 
/24/ 19 84 
a A 

TY: 
Hours 
(3!) Sick 
(Y) Jury 

38. 
1 

Home Phone 
Work Phone 
Schedule Name 

(772) 626-3014 

ESC 
EXIT 

/ 
'DAT 

Locker Number 
Valid Initials 
Alternative Week Overtimi 

Current V 

S 
CLEAR MENU 

245 Home Store 
y/Union Code No Union 

Hours:YES q.5 

g PlO P12 
QR$ HELP KEYS 

Number of Windows4 SYS':EM MESSAGE AVAILABLE 

9. 



JUL—16—2013 NED M CYS 5 pAx:7, 343 0608 P.002 
STATEMENT 

to. 

I m 

Address: 

Phone;___ 

Q Question by 

Answer by: 

DOE: AGE: 

Lent voluntarily to CVS/pharmacy and . 
ON. 

I offer this stat4 
leniency by any 

SIGNED: 

WITNESS: 

WITNESS: 

ment voluntarily, and state That it is true, to the best of my knowledge. I have not 
agent of 0/S/pharmacy to compel me to submit this statement. 

- 
DATE: ; 
DATE: 

threatened, coerced, or promised 

TIME:______ 

___TIME; __TIME: 

j:57 

of 'V 

In 

_________ 

hereby make this state 

on ly 

I am making this statement of my own free will without any threat, promise, or coerc 

Palm hr. #øf Port 5f . 
'ndec 

Q. What is your 

A. P arr 
current title and length of service at CVS/pharmacy? 

'saw 3 
1 3 

' • - / 
r- 

77 
. 

@. 71 7 ../7 
• 

- 4- , 
uJQS (&Mcn I knnr -Ar a. 

L +oot m 1fw m. Ano4k,er +jmc 

c,c- nctU ihI(fk 

— ,_J - U nc na c.a'U mAd , In 

mc .k ;nrmd;viis T *,rt L14,dIra-(fl'OV7 Sr a arnrd kove s7)a 

I ). " 
roMo&1so.tei -R/ Mu WrKBIS - 

K,iAJ /1- uiac tu -HnI'tq -ho do 

I / I 



JUL—10—2013 PM CYS 5 FAX:1 0608 P.003 

STATEMENT c . CYQ5 

ytcodorij 

;L 
ie (asf 

I this sti 
leniency by 

SIGNED: a- /2 DATE:______ 

DATE:___________ 

DATE: 13 

been tireatened, coerced, or promised 

PAGE 
2.. 

7' ri o/;Z' 4-hp 
ye - 74b 

(5 
I / 

r- e 
4 c;a-? - 

C. 4L. 1 ) 
fr flf I avrl \y'4-fje and ) 

Tn° t -i-nr& anoLpu4- i (* 
2 

C. - 

merit voluntarity, and state that it is true, to the best of my knowledge. I have not 
agent of CVS/pharmacy to compel me to submit this statement. 

: 
ci 

TIME:________ / J-J, 

___TIME:________ __TIME: 

1/si 



JUL—10—2013 Ot:0i flcvs 5 FAU7' 343 0608 .004 

STATEMENT 

een threatened, coerced, or promised 

DATE: 7/lOIS 

__ 

i: V4 449 " TIME: 

DATE; iitd'f 

PAGE of ' i 

. , a- 
r Cfl 

Q, yr. 
,7 ( cPcA'dnr - 

4 
° r 

• 0/ 2 

a /4: 
7- 

I offer This statement voluntarily, and state that it is true, to the best of my knowledge. I have not 
leniency by any agent of CV$/pharmacy to cempel me to submit this statement. 

SIGNED: 

WITNESS: 

____________ 

DATE: 



JUL—10—2013 UE 01:01 PM CVS 5 FLXV 343 0608 05 
STATEMENT 

TIME: 

TME:____ 

. 4rL o/ r 
7 

'% 

- 

0 4*' 2 
fir c4 ac c&ad 

yk s {ks 

1 

! 

' 
: 

. 

. \ \ 
N 

N 

I offer this stat 
leniency by any 

SIGNED: 

WITNESS: 

WITNESS: 

ment voluntarily, and state that it is true, to the best of my knowledge. 
agent of CVS/pharniacy to compel me to submit this statement. 

I have not been threatened, or promised 

DATE: IL; 

DATE: 

PAGE 



JUL—10—2013 01:01 5 FAX:7 343 0608 P.006 

Promissory Note 

- 7 fiOjI3 
resfitithon as set out below, or as ordered by a court a! law, to CS/S. Me. 

I agree to make resdttiUon in the aniount ur nd 4 U 
(Prtntad.Azn u 

Default in tile payment of any installment when due, either in whole or part at the option of CS/S 
whole sum to become due and payable at once without notice, Failure to ecercise this 
of the right to exercise the same in the event of arty subs equertt default. 

Upon default. I agree to pay all ariounts due and owing pursuant to this Fwinissory plust 
reasonable attorney's fees. 

The rights and remedies hereby given shell not affect other rights and remedies which CV$ may 
undersigned, nor shall CYS acceptance or any payment or paymenis hereunda, effect ma 
remedie& 

Thss nots is not given in exchange for any piomise, express or implied, regarding either the s 
any other action the company may take, either civil or 9 and is entered into by me valiant 
and with my full and consent as to the terms hereizt 

lathe event any porfion of oxy note shall be determined to be void for eny reason, th 
of this note shall remain 9a orceable. 

Inc,,sheflcagse the 
not a waiver 

e cost and suit and 

eve against the 
iother righisor 

of my employment or 
ily, without dtuesa, 

Stort ut 2 '7- 

,, have admowledged the unauthorized co ion of certain 

and signed by me. La tee to nice full 

H 

WLaess (7 

remaining 

Signature 

/O/LT____ 
Date 



• 
•. 

••. 
•• 

••. 
•. 

•. 
•• 

• 
.•• 

• 
—

 
..• 

.•. 
• 

• ; 
• 

• 
: 

•••• 
• 

•• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

•• 
• 

• 
H

 

N
am

e 

:1 

4C
A

SH
 

O
X

Y
0000N

E
 I-lot. 15M

G
T

A
S

LE
T

 
- 

O
U

G
O

3-4991 -21 
IO

Q
E

A
 

- 
- —

—
 

$ 
D

rug ltly 
0 

4 
D

rug U
nitC

ost 
0 

5 
Ice 

6, 
P

atIent P
ay A

m
Q

unt 
:__ii I 

9. 
P

rIce D
ifference 

I 

. a t-. 

a 
• 

- 
C

 
.- 

C
 

—
 

0 —
 

n 'C
 

n n -'a 

I 
• I 

• 

:0 
0 

LIne 
price 

F
cr a S

pecillo Q
uantity 9 

P
rice C

alculation F
or a $peciiig D

ollar A
m

ount 

(U
Q

S
9) 

- 

L 
[ 

S
P

 

I 
F

12 
16 

i:i 
R

I 
19 



P
rice Q

uote 
w

k$O
1 

A
It—

F
2 

- 
C

hA
IN

 
W

ed, 10 Jul 201311 
39 27 

2 3 

P
atIent T

yp* 

I)rug Q
uantity 

ftpo 
- 

4 
D

w
gunttC

ost 

B
 

Prloe 
fl fl 

ii 7 B
 

9 

P
aftent P

ay A
m

ount 

E
quIva'ent D

rug 

P
rtce D

IIIerenoG
 

j J 

S
E

A
 

Z
A

P
D

-ftX
 PM

IIM
 

. D
rug N

am
e 

H
Y

O
B

O
Q

O
PO

N
rA

C
E

rA
M

JN
O

PH
N

J 
- 

• 

. 

O
D

4O
G

-*30,O
t 

C
 

. 
- C

 

- 

• 
—

 
- 

C
 

- 
. 0 

- 

- 

• C
 

—
a 

• 

C
 

C
 

C
hange Lrne U

M
, T

hee C
alculatiqa P

or a 
Q

uanhty 
P

rice C
alculation F

or a S
psouiic D

ollar A
m

ount 

S
99 

E
xit 

rroiiiejj 
j 

A
dJ 

t 
F2 

F3 
P4 

15 
? 

S 
P9 

FIG
 

E
li 

112 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: West Palm Beach Date of Case: 7/15/13 CaseNumber: 2013-10982 
Subject: MALISSA SUE BENDER, RPT Source: DEPT. OF HEALTH/CONSUMER SERVICES 
181 SW Palm Dr., Apt. 202* UNIT (CSU) 
Port Saint Lucie, FL 34986 
(772) 626-3014 
Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RPT 37251 Registered Pharmacy Technician Pharmacy 7/17/2013 
Period of Investigation: 7/17/13 — 7/17/13 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: F.S. 456.072(1 )(z)(dd); 465.016(1 )(d)2.(e)(i)(m)-Failure to perform any statutory/legal obligation; 
Impaired from alcohol/drugs/other; Prescription/dispensing outside professional practice; Violating any provision/rule 
Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of an internally-generated complaint (EX#1) from 
DOH's CSU indicating internet news media reported BENDER was arrested 7/10/13 in Port Saint Lucie for 
grand theft of controlled substances. BENDER allegedly admitted to stealing Oxycodone and Hydrocodone 
from her employer: CVS Pharmacy, located in Saint Lucie West. 

BENDER was notified of this investigation via telephone and certified letter dated 7/17/13 (EX#2) and was 
provided a copy of the Case Summary, complaint, and a voluntary relinquishment form. 

Per DOH licensure database records, BENDER is a licensed Registered Pharmacy Technician. 

There is no direct patient involvement, thus patient notification is unnecessary. 

BENDER is not known to be currently represented by an attorney in this DOH matter. 

In a telephonic statement, BENDER admitted to the essence of the allegation, although clarified that she only 
stole a hand fill of Hydrocodone and did not take the Oxycodone as the media has reported. BENDER will 
consider voluntarily relinquishing her license, possibly in the near ftiture. 

*BENDER advises her current address is: 231 SW Palm Dr., Apt 108, Port St. Lucie, FL 34986 
Related Cases: 2013-10988 

Investigator/Date: Approved By/Date: 

AMY SENIOR, INVESTIGATOR, W1-89 MICHELLE MILLER, INV. MANAGER, WT-l02 

Distribution: HQ/ISU Page 1 

Received 

SeflteS 

/ 

!JUL 1 9 

l 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REr'ORT CsSE NUMBER: 2013-10982 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. rNVESTICiATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 
Investigator's Note 3 : 

MALISSA SUE BENDER, RPT-Subject 4 

IV. EXI-IIBITS 

1. Case Summary, complaint, news article 5-7 
• 2. Subject notification, dated 7/17/13 and VR 8-13 

3. Police report from Port Saint Lucie Police Department 14-2 1 

*E)CPABITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHIICII IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME 
AND ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES. 

**mese records are sealed pursuant to Section 456.057(1O)(a), Florida Statutes and copies of 
same are not maintained in the West Palm Beach Investigative Services office. 

***This exhibit contains confidential records concerning reports of abuse, neglect or exploitation 
of the vulnerable adult, including reports made to the central abuse hotline, and is sealed 
pursuant to section 415.107(1) Florida Statutes. 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE RtPORT CASE NUMBER: 2013-10982 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 
DOH CSTJ reviewed an internet news report from palmbeachpost.com (EX#l) advising BENDER, 
while employed at CVS Pharmacy in Saint Lucie West, admitted to taking a patient's prescription 
of 30 Oxycodone pills. BENDER reportedly also admitted that two weeks prior she stole a stock 
bottleof Hydrocodone. BENDER was reportedly arrested by Port Saint Lucie Police Department on 
7/10/13. Police reports confirm she was charged with two counts of theft of a controlled substance. 
BENDER reportedly stated she stole the medications for an ailing neighbor; however the neighbor 
reportedly moved away with no further contact info provided by BENDER. 

SUMMARY OF RECORD 
EX#3 is the police report from Port Saint Lucie Police Department (PD agency case# 13-11934) 
advising on 7/10/13 CVS staffer reported a missing prescription filled on/around 6/7/13 for 30 
Oxycodone. The prescription was filled, but when the customer came to pick it up, it was missing 
and never found. CVS loss prevention department did an investigation. There were no witnesses or 
surveillance footage available. CVS Loss Prevention Manager ADALBERT MARTINEZ narrowed 
down the time frame of when the prescription went missing and narrowed down to two employees 
that would have been around at that time. Upon interviewing one of the employees: BENDER, she 
admitted to taking the prescription. BENDER gave MARTINEZ a written statement explaining that 
she stole the prescription. BENDER further admitted to taking a stock bottle of Hydrocodone about 
two weeks ago; which had not been known to CVS until BENDER's admission. 

When PSL PD made contact with BENDER, she said she stole prescription medication from the 
pharmacy. BENDER admitted to taking the prescription that was filled for the customer and also 
took a bottle of Hydrocodone from the pharmacy shelf about two weeks ago. BENDER states the 
pills are all now gone and she is unable to get them back. BENDER states she gave the pills to a 
neighbor and did not receive any compensation for them. BENDER claims the neighbor had cancer 
and could not afford the pain pills. The neighbor asked BENDER to get the pills for her. BENDER 
would not provide any information on the neighbor, claiming the neighbor moved away about a 
week ago. 

INVESTIGATOR'S : 
Attempts were made to /interview/obtain statements from any CVS staffer who may have 
been witnessed to or familiar with the investigation of this matter. Contact with CVS store 
Pharmacist BRAD WHEELER, RPH lead to being referred to NICOLE POWERS, District 
Pharmacy Supervisor (401-665-8017). WHEELER stated he was advised to not make any 
statements about the matter. POWERS was unable to provide needed details and referred this 
investigator to ADALBERT MARTINEZ, Regional Loss Prevention Manager (954-649-2452). 
Messages left for MARTINEZ have not yet been returned. If/when additional information is 
received from CVS it will be relayed to DOH's PSU in a supplemental report. 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CMSE NUMBER: 2013-1 0982 

INTERVIEW OF MALISSA SUE BENDER, lifT-SUBJECT 
Current address: 
231 SW Palm Dr., Apt 108 
Port Saint Lucie, FL 34986 
(772) 626-3014 

On 7/17/13 BENDER was interviewed by Investigator SENIOR via telephone, essentially stating: 

• BENDER confirms that approximately one month ago, she moved from her address of 
record to the above-indicated address. She was advised of her obligation to update same 
with the Board. 

• BENDER admits that the general essence of the news report (EX#l) is true; but they do not 
have the exact details correct. 

• BENDER admits while employed at CVS Pharmacy as a Pharmacy Technician, she did steal 
a handful of Hydrocodone pills. BENDER states there is no truth that she stole Oxycodone 
pills as reported. She is aware that a patient came in to the pharmacy to pick up theft 
Oxycodone prescription and it was missing; however she had nothing to do with that. 

• BENDER states the reason she stole the Hydrocodone was that someone she knew from 
being a pharmacy customer could not afford their medication; so BENDER stole some pills 
for that person. 

• BENDER denies stealing pills for her personal use or to sell the pills. BENDER denies 
having any substance abuse problem and does not require any treatment or evaluation for 
same. 

• BENDER states she will likely strongly consider voluntarily relinquishing her license. Once 
she receives and reviews the complaint and VR documents, she will re contact this 
investigator to discuss further. 

• BENDER states she has not entered any plea in the corresponding criminal court matter; and 
there is no trial date set as of yet. 

CONFIDENTIAL INDEX TO PATIENT'S NAME IS EXHIBJT#4 

Page 4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTE 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Honda thraugh integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201300800 

DEBORAH LOUISE CHENOWETH, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: DEBORAH LOUISE CHENOWETH 
17363 MEADOW LAKE CIRCLE 
FORT MYERS, FL 33967 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is not required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City 
Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 
Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

q& Executive Director 
OF PHARMACY 

Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance ITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444• FAX : (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott Mission: 
I Governor 

of all people in Eloñda through integrated 
John H. Annstrong, , FACS 

To protect, prornote & irnprove the health 
- 

state, counly & comrnuniiy efforts. 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

TO: 

MEMORANDUM 
Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM: Michael Lawrence, Jr., Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Voluntary Relinquishment 
SUBJECT: 

DOll Case Number 2013-00800 

DATE: AuQust 1. 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Deborah Louise Chenoweth 
Subject's Address of 17363 Meadow Lake Circle 
Record: Fort Myers, FL 33967 
Enforcement Address: 17363 Meadow Lake Circle 

Fort Myers, FL 33967 
Subject's License No: 43436 Rank: PS 
Licensure File No: 34370 

Initial Licensure Date: 3/25/2008 
Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): 465.016(1)(h), FS (2010) 
Prior Discipline: None 
Probable Cause Panel: June 27, 2013; Fallon & Glass 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Anonymous 
Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Voluntary Relinquishment 
Administrative Complaint 
Notice of Scrivener's Error 
Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 
Probable Cause Panel Memorandum 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1-3 

Fiorida Dopartmont of Hoa!th , .FiorldasHnaith.com Office of the General CounselS Prosecuoon Unit 
TWITTER-H th FLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 leaith Express rnarl address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

VOUTUBE fldoh PHONE: FAX 8501245-4683 



•Jui-22 02:14 PM keybank National Assodation 239-437-3849 13 

FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK .AngeCSanders 

lATE OF FLOFUDA DATE JUL 2 5 2013 

DEPARThENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARThIENI OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

V. CASE NO. -00000 
DEBORAH LOUISE , R.Ph., 

RESPONDENT. 

_I 

VOLUNTARY RaINOUISHMENT OF 

Respondent Deborah Louise Chenoweth, R,Ph., license No. 43436, hereby voiuntadly 

relinquishes Respondent's license to pharmacy in the State of Florida and states as 

i, Respondent's purpose In executing this Voluntary Relinquishment Is to avoid further 

action wftIi respect to this cause, Respondent understands that dcceptance by the 

Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be contued as 

disdpilnary action against Respondent's license pursuant to Section , Florida Statutes. 

24 Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a pharmacist in the State of . 
3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing pharmacy immediately upon 

executing this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent Further agrees to refrain from the practice of 

pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to the Hoard and the Board 

Issues a written final order In this matter, 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in a public 

Respondent, fully of the consequencep of dotny, nereby , l,ht 

privilege of of Section Florida and a 

determination of cause, by the Cause Panel, or the Department when appropriate, 

pursuant th Section Rorida St4tutes, regarding die the pf 



2013-Jut-22 02:14 PM Assodation 3848 3/3 

the Department of 4 and all other ion obtained pursuant to the Department's 

investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this waiver, Respondent understands that the 

record and complSnt become public record and remain public record and that information is 

Immedlately accessible to the public, Section 456.073(10) Florida Stahites. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent agrees to 

waive rights to seek ldal review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the validity of, this 

Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order ol the Board this Voluntary 

Relinquishment 

6, Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of this 

Voluntary Rthnqirisliment, each party shall bear Its own attorney's fees and costs relatEd to the 

prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine t investigath,e file iaLs 
concerning Respondent in connection with the 's consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

Respondent agrees that consIderation of this Voluntary Relinquishment and other related materials by 

the shaii.ript qr the Bpard, or any of its members, fromfurther participation, 

consideration, or respiuUon or these If the terms of this Vuluntary nut 

acepte4 by Board! > 
Deborah oulse Chenoweth, 

srATh OF IDA 
cOUNTYOP: Le& 
Bçfore, me, personally who5e ideiwity is to rrle 
by (type of Identificatjon) and who, under oath, thc*c 
hrs sigrrnture and before me clay OF 

. 

v Cpm tsiort 
s 

Ii I S 14 MYdO 112 i 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

CASE NO. 2013-00800 

DEBORAH LOUISE CHENOWETH, R.Ph., 

RESPONDENt 
I 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Deborah Louise Chenoweth, R.PIL, 

and in support thereof alleges; 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was a licensed pharmacist within the state of Florida, having 

been issued license number PS 43436. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 17363 Meadow Lake Circle, 

Fort Myers, Florida 33967. 

4. The Arizona State Board of Pharmacy is the regulatory agency 

of the practice of pharmacy in the State of Arizona. 

5. Respondent's Arizona pharmacy license was license number 

S010764. 

6. On or about September 10, 2010, the Arizona State Board of 

Pharmacy issued Board Order No. lO-00-71-pHR. 

7. The Arizona State of Pharmacy issued Board Order No. 

O-00-71-pl-IR due to Respondent's violation of A.R.S. § 32-1901.ol(B)(2), 

for violating a formal order, terms of probation, a consent agreement or a 

stipulation issued or entered into by the Board or its executive director. 

8. Violating a Board Order in Florida would constitute a violation 

of Section .016(1)(n), Florida Statutes. 

9. Board Order No. 10-O0-71-PHR revoked Arizona 

pharmacy license. 

10. Section 465.016(1)(h), Florida Statutes (2010), provides that 

having been disciplined by a regulatory agency in another state for any [ of Healthy. Deborah Louise Chenoweth, 
2 Case Number 2013-03800 



offense that would constitute a violation of this chapter constitutes grounds 

for disdplinary action. 

11. Respondent was disciplined by a regulatory agency in another 

state for an offense that would constitute a violation of Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes, by having Respondent's Arizona pharmacy license revoked 

by the Arizona State Board of Pharmacy in Board Order , 10-O0-71-PHR, 

12. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

5.016(1)(n), Florida Statutes (2010), by violating an order of the board 

or department previously entered in a disciplinary hearing. 

Department of Health v. Deborah Louise Clienoweth, R.PIL 3 Case 2013-00800 



WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter art order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this day of 13 . 201& 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FAc3 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

t +/ 
MICHAEL 6. JR. 

General'cQujset 
Pla. Bar No. 0011265 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 

FILED 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 

Telephone: (850) 245-4444, extension 8199 
DATE J(Jfl 272013 e. - 

Email: @doh.state.fl.us 

/MGL 

PCP: t5 
I PCP r7lfl(A 

Department of Health v. Dthorah Louise Oienoweth, RPIi. 4 
Case Number 2013-00800 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 
Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witheues and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall assess costs related to the investigation and pmsecution of a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

Department or Realdi v. Deborah thwse Chenoweth, R.Pft. 
S 

Case Number 





order of the board or department previously entered in a disciplinary 

hearing." 

3. The correct reference should have stated, "Based on the 

foregoing, Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(h), Florida Statutes 

(2010), by having been disciplined by a regulatory agency in another state 

for any offense that would constitute a violation of this !' 
4. The Administrative Complaint is to properly reflect the correct 

statute number and statutory language. 

5. The correction of this error is of no prejudice to Respondent 

and makes no substantive change to the Administrative Complaint. 

6. This Notice shall take effect upon its filing with the Clerk of the 

Department. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner requests that the Administrative Complaint 

be amended to reflect the correction as detailed above. 

Assistant General Couns 
Ha. Bar No. 0011265 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 

2 



Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444, extension 8199 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: michael .us 
CERflFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing has been provided by U.S. l this day of July, 2013, to 

Deborah Louise Chenoweth, 17363 Meadow Lake Circle, Fort Myers, Florida 

33967. 

Assistant General Counsel 

MGL 

3 



Rick Scott Mission: I 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 
I of all people in Florida through integrated ! 

I John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS state, county & cemmunity efforts. 

I 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

VIsion: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

July 31, 2013 

Deborah Chenoweth 
17363 Meadow Lake Circle 
Ft Myers, FL 33967 

Re: DOH vs. Deborah Louise Chenoweth, R.Ph. l Case Number: 2013-00800 

Dear. Ms. Chenoweth: 

We are in receipt of your executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. As you are aware by signing 
the Voluntary Relinquishment of License form you agreed to the following: 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against your license, 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes; 

• Voluntarily relinquishing your Florida pharmacy license may have an effect on pharmacy licenses 
you may hold in other states. 

If this is not what you understood, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 850-245-4444 
x8199. Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of Pharmacy will take up your 
request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their next regularly scheduled meeting. You are not 
required to attend the meeting. 

Sincer ly 

Srence,j 
Assistant General Cou 

ML/ab 

Florida Department of Health 
www.FiorldasHealth.com Office of the General CounselS Prosecuflon Services Unit 

TWITTER:HealthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way! Bin S Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

YOUTUBE: lIdoh PHONE: 850/245-4444 FAX 8501245-4683 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Deborah Louise Chenoweth, R.Ph. (MGL) 
Case Number: 2013-00800 

MEMBERS: Lee Fallon and Debra Glass 

DATE OF PCP: June 27, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-2 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise fully advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes andrules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.016(1)(n), Florida Statutes (2010); 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

_____ 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
e) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 3 
Cdiise Panel Date 

Board of Pharmacy 



INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Date of Complaint: Case Number: 
CONSUMER SERVICES February 18, 2013 PS 201 3-00800 

Subject: 
DEBORAH LOUISE CHENOWETH 
17363 Meadow Lake Circle 
Fort Myers, FL 33967 
239-985-2239 

Source: 
Anonymous 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
Ps 43436 Pharmacist Pharmacy 04/18/2013 

Period of Investigation: 
03/13/2013 through 04/18/2013 

Type of Report: 
FINAL 

Alleged Violation: SS. 456.072(1)(f)(dd) and 465.01 6(1)(h)(r), F.S. License disciplined by other state; Violate 
statute/rule 

Synopsis: This investigation is predicated on the receipt of an anonymous complaint concerning 
CHENOWETH's discipline and revocation by the Arizona Board of Pharmacy. CHENOWETH's Arizona license 
was placed on probation in 2002 for diverting controlled substances. This discipline was reported to the Florida 
Board of Pharmacy at the time of licensure. CHENOWETH was again disciplined by the Arizona Board of 
Pharmacy in 2008 for writing a new prescription for herself, and refilling two other prescriptions without 
authorization from her doctor. CHENOWETH's Arizona license was revoked on 09/20/2010. (EXHIBIT #1) 

CHENOWETH was notified of this complaint by letter, dated 03/13/2013. The notification was sent to the 
mailing address of record. Forwarded with this letter were copies of the Case Summary and the initiating 
documents. (EXHIBIT #2) 

DOH licensure information was viewed on 04/18/2013. It reflects CHENOWETH is duly licensed to practice as 
a Pharmacist in the State of Florida with Clear, Active status. 

No patient involvement, thus patient notification not required. 

CHENOWETH is not known to be represented by counsel in this matter as of the date of this report. 
CHENOWETH responded to notification of this complaint via letter, received on 04/08/2013. (Exhibit ) 
Related Case: 

Investigator/Date: A /Date: 

Nicole Singleton, OMC Manager 

Distribution: Prosecution Services Unit/Consumer Services Unit Page 1 

C 
t t 



DOH iVE REPORT CASE NUMBER PS 2013-00800 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER PAGE 
1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

II. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Records 3 

Interviews/Statements: 
Interview/Statement of the FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 3 
Interview/Statement of DEBORAH LOUISE CHENOWETH 3 

III. EXHIBITS 

1) Case Summary & Initiating Documents 4-23 

2) CHENOWETH's Notification Letter 24 

3) CHENOWETH's Response 25-27 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER PS 201 3-00800 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF ANONYMOUS COMPLAINANT - Source 

Address of Record: 

On 01/1 0/201 3, Investigator Hill received an anonymous complaint questioning why 
CHENOWETH is practicing pharmacy in Florida, and whether CHENOWETH has reported her 
Arizona discipline and revocation to Florida. CHENOWETH's Arizona license was placed on 
probation in 2002 for diverting controlled substances. This discipline was reported to the Florida 
Board of Pharmacy at the time of licensure. CHENOWETH was again disciplined by the Arizona 
Board of Pharmacy in 2008 for writing a new prescription for herself, and refilling two other 
prescriptions without authorization from her doctor. CHENOWETH's Arizona license was revoked 
on 09/20/2010. (E)(HIBIT#1) 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF DEBORAH LOUISE CHENOWETH - Subject 

Address of Record: 17363 Meadow Lake Circle 
Fort Myers, FL 33967 
239-985-2239 

CHENOWETH responded to notification of this complaint via letter, received on 04/08/2013. 
CHENOWETH states her Arizona license was on probation when she applied licensure in Florida, 
and she was placed on one year probation by the Florida Board of Pharmacy when she obtained 
her Florida license. CHENOWETH states her probation in Arizona was not for diverting controlled 
substances, it was a result of her self-reporting to a group similar to PRN in June 2001. 
CHENOWETH states she hired an attorney in 2002 after having problems with the group, and the 
Arizona probation followed. CHENOWETH states she was at the end of her probation when she 
moved to Florida in 2007. CHENOWETH states she had no intention of working or living in 
Arizona again, so she didn't feel the need to respond. CHENOWETH returned to Arizona in 2007 
to work until her Florida license was approved. In November 2007, while working as a floating 
pharmacist at lgreens in Tucson, AZ, CHENOWETH contacted her physician in Florida and 
requested two refills and a new prescription for Amoxicillin. CHENOWETH admits that she took 
the medication out of the pharmacy expecting them to be approved, but the prescriptions were 
denied after she left the store. CHENOWETH reports that she billed her insurance company for 
the medications, but she has paid restitution. CHENOWETH states her Arizona license was 
revoked for failure to pay the civil penalty, which she was unable to pay due to financial hardships. 
CHENOWETH states she wasn't aware of her requirement to report her Arizona license revocation 
to the Florida Board of Pharmacy. CHENOWETH further states she knew that she would never 
return to Atizona so the license revocation wasn't an issue for her. CHENOWETH reports that she 
hasn't worked as a pharmacist since September 2012. 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTh 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & irnprove the health 
of all people in Florida thraugh integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201307691 

WILSON DRUG, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: WILSON DRUG 
4977 US HWY 98 NORTH 
LAKELAND, FL 33809 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is not required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City 
Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

k 
Executive Director 

OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance ITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentotHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245.4444 • FAX (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect promote & improve the heath 
otall people in lodda through integrated John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS state, county & community efforts 

State Surgeon General & Seaetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Kristal Beharry, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Voluntary Relinquishment 
SUBJECT: DOH v. DRM Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Wilson Drug 

DOH Case Number 2013-07691 

DATE: July 16, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: DRM Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Wilson Drug 
Subject's Address of 4977 US Hwy. 98 North 
Record: Lakeland, FL 33809 
Enforcement Address: 4977 us Hwy. 98 North 

Lakeland, FL 33809 

Subject's License No: 18748 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 10881 

Initial Licensure Date: 9/3/2002 
Board Certification: None 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: None 

Allegation(s): Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating 
Rule 64B16-28.202(3), F.A.C. 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: None 

Subject's Attorney: A.S. Weekley, Esquire 

Weekley/SchultefValdes 
1635 North Tampa St. #100 
Tampa, FL 33602 
813-221-1154 Telephone 

Complainant/Address: Department of Health/Investigative Services 
Unit-Tampa 

Ponds Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel' Prosea,tion Services lint 

TWfl1tR:HeatthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399.1701 lth 
Express adthess: 2585 Meithants Row - Suite 105 

YOIIFUBE: tldoh PHONE: 850/245-4444' FAX 8501245-4683 



Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment of License 
Voluntary Relinquishment (filed) 
Notification Letter 
Final Investigative report with Exhibits 1-10 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 9 
CASE 2013-07691 . 

DRM Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Wilson Drug, 
Respondent. 

____________________________________I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER 
BASED UPON A VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, by and through its undersigned counsel, 

and moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order in the above- 

styled cause on a date and time that has been determined and noticed by 

the Board. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner would state the following: 

1. On or about May 14, 2013, a Uniform Consumer Complaint was 

flied with the Department of Health, alleging that the Subject violated the 

provisions of Chapter 464 or Chapter 456, Florida Statutes. 

2. In lieu of undergoing further disciplinary proceedings, the 

Respondent returned an executed Voluntary Relinquishment of his/her 

license. 



3. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case shall be furnished to the Board to 

establish a prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Uniform Consumer Complahit. 

WHEREFORE the parties respectfully request the Board of Pharmacy 

enter a Final Order hicorporating the terms of the Voluntary 

Relinquishment of Licensure. 

Respectfully submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4444 telephone 
(850) 245-4683 facsimile 
Florida Bar No. 0078070 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 
foregoiQg been provided by .S. mail this day of 

2013, to A.S. Weekley, 
1635 North Tampa Street, Suite 100, Tampa, FL 

33602. 

KristaJ Beharry ) 
Assistant General Counsel 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK 

STATEOF FLORIDA DATE t - 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. DOH Case No. 2013-07691 

DRNI Enterprises, Inc./DBA Wilson Drug, Pharmacy 
Respondent. 

I 

VOLUNTARY RELINOLJISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent DRM Enterprises, IDBA iLson Drug, Pharmacy, license No, 18748, 

hereby voluntarily relinquishes Respondent's license to practice pharmacy in the State of 

Florida and states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment shall be construed as disdpiinary action against Respondent's license 

pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. As with any disciplinary action, this 

relinquishment wifl be reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank as discipftary 

action. Licensing authorities in other states may impose discipline in their jurisdiction 

based on discipline taken in Florida, 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacy in the State 

of Florida. 

JNV FORM 425, Revised 04-13. Created 02-ID 



3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing pharmacy immediately 

upon executing this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from 

the practice of pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a pubhc meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of SectIon 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become public record and 

remain public record and that information is immediately accessible to the public. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek judidal review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary ReUnquishmEnt and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating 

this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this 

f 



Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shalt not prejudice or preclude the 

Board, or any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DATED this day of Jct . 
DRM Enterprises, Inc. 

STATE OF - 
COUNTY' OF p a m 
Before me, personally appeared D , whose identity is 

known to me or who produced IL I) I - — (type of identification) and 

who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this — day of L. , 2013. 

NOTARY 
My Commission Expires: tIN b 

S Notary ic State or Florida 
• Margie r 

- mmission 00925487 
rixpires 



flick Scott Mission: I I 
Governor To protect promote & improve the health 

I I 
of all people in Flotida through inteuated 

I 

John H. Annatrong, MD, FACS state, county & community efforts. 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the NaOon 

August 27, 2013 

AS. Weekley, Esquire 
Weekley/SchulteNaldes 
Attorneys at Law 
1635 North Tampa Street, Suite 100 
Tampa, FL 33602 

Re: DOH vs. DRM Enterprises, Inc. dlbla Wilson Drug Pharmacy 
DOH Case Number: 2013-07691 

Dear Mr. Weekley: 

We are in receipt of your executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. As you are aware by signing 
the Voluntary Relinquishment of License fomi, you agreed to the following: 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against your client's license, 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes; 

• Voluntarily relinquishing a Florida profession license may have an effect on profession licenses 
that you may hold in other states. 

If this is not what you understand, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 850-245- 
4444 ext. 8218. Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of Pharmacy will take 
up your request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their meeting scheduled October 9, 2013, at 
the Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32405. You are not 
required to attend the meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

KBcmn 

Florida Department of Health 
www.FiorldasHealth.com Office of the General Counsel Services Unit 

I1TER:HeaIthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 
FACEBOOK:PLDepartnentofHealth Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row.. Suite 105 

VOUTUBE: fldoh PHONE: .44 FAX 850/245.4683 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: TAMPA Date of Case: 05/14/13 j Case Number: 201307691 
Subject: WILSON DRUG Source: DOH I ISU I TAMPA 
4977 U.S. Hwy 98 North 
Lakeland FL 33809 
863-858-4444 

Prefix: License# Profession: Board: Report Date: 
PH 18748 Pharmacy Pharmacy 07/08/13 

Period of Investigation: 05/29/13 to 07/08/13 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: F.S. 456.072(1 )(k)(dd); F.S. 465.016(1)(r); 5.023(1)(c); RULE 64B16-28.202(3)(a)(b) F.A.C.: Failing 
to perform...; Violating any provision...; Violated any of the requirements...; In the event of closure of a pharmacy, the 
permittee shall notify the Board 

Synopsis: This report is predicated upon a Case Summary, (Exhibit #1), based upon a complaint from the Tampa Investigative Services Unit. On 12/12/12, Investigator JOSEPH DeGREGORIO attempted to perform a routine pharmacy inspection at WILSON DRUG at the address of record. According to Investigator IO, the location is now occupied by a new pharmacy; People's Pharmacy. WILSON DRUG did not notify the Board of Pharmacy of the closure of the facility. 

WILSON DRUG was notified of the investigation by letter, (Exhibit #2), dated 05/29/13 to the address of record and was provided a copy of the Case Summary and complaint. 

A check of the DOH computer licensure records revealed that WILSON DRUG is licensed as a pharmacy. The current license expired on 02/28/13 and is in a delinquent status. 

The patient notification letter was not utilized since no patients were identified. 

The source notification letter was not utilized since the complainant is the Department of Health 

INV FORN 300, created 07/02 

0 \ 

2013 

WILSON DRUG is represented by A.S. WEEKLEY of lteNaldes, Attorneys at Law: 1635 North Tampa Street, Suite 100, Tampa, FL, 33602: 813-221-1154 (Exhibit #SL WEEKLEY requested a Py of the investigative report, 

On 07/03/13 investigator MARTIN received the signed Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form from DUANE McKOWN, owner of WILSON DRUG (Exhibit #9). 

Related Case(s): N ne 

Approved By/Date: 7_- s..- 

BabefteS.Agen TI-115 
Scott M. Martin 11-149 
Investigation Specialist II 

I Investigation Supervisor 

Distribution: HO/ISU 
1 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPOC CASE JMBER: 201307691 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 
1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 

Interview 

Interview of DUANE McKOWN, Owner of WILSON DRUG / Witness 4 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary 5 -7 

2. Subject Notification Letter dated 05/3D/i 3 8 - 20 

3. Florida Corporation information regarding corporation ownership 21 - 26 

4. Inspection reports 27 - 28 

5. Photographs of business 29 - 30 

6. CD of digital photographs 31 

7. Evidence Control Form (Photographs) — 

8. Letter of Representation from A.S. WEEKLEY, Attorney, dated 06/i 9/13 33 - 34 

9. Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form received 07/03/13 35 - 42 

*10. E-mail message sent to YOLANDA GREEN, Attorney for PSU 43 

*EXHIBIT5 CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE SEALED 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

**These records are sealed pursuant to Section .057(lOfla), Florida Statutes and copies of same are 
not maintained in the Tampa Investigative Services office 

INV FORM 300, Revised 02/08, Created 07/02 

Page 2 



DOll INVESTIGATIVE REPOP' CASE 'JMBER: 201307691 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #1 is the Case Summary 

Exhibit #2 is the Subject Notification Letter and Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form sent out to the 
following addresses obtained in the COMPAS database and Florida Corporation Website. 

o P.O. Box 429 Placida, FL 33945 
• P.O. Box 402 Placida, FL 33946 
• 4200 South Florida Ave. Lakeland, FL 33813 

4977 US Hwy 98 North Lakeland, FL 33809 
e 437 South Central Ave. Lakeland, FL 33815 

Exhibit #3 is the Florida Corporation information regarding ownership of DRM ENTERPRISES, INC../D.B.A. 
WILSON DRUG. 

Exhibit #4 is the most current pharmacy inspection report dated 12/12/12. 

Exhibit #5 includes the photographs of the business now located at 4977 Hwy 98 North in Lakeland, FL. 
(PEOPLE'S PHARMACY). These photographs were taken by Investigator SCOTT MARTIN on 05/30/13. 

Exhibit #6 is one (1) CD containing three (3) digital photographs. 

Exhibit #7 is the Evidence Control Form. One CD of the photographs has been entered into evidence in the 
Tampa ISU office. 

Exhibit #8 is the Letter of Representation from A.S. WEEKLEY, Attorney, dated 06/1 9/1 3. 

Exhibit #9 is the Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form received 07/03/13. 

Exhibit #10 is the E-mail message sent to YOLANDA GREEN, Attorney for PSU. 

Interview of KAREN MCKOWN - Owner of People's Pharmacy ) 
People's Pharmacy 
4977 US Hwy 98 North 
Lakeland, FL 33809 
863-858-4444 

On 05/30/1 3, Investigator SCOTT MARTIN interviewed KAREN MCKOWN at 437 8. Central Ave. in Lakeland, 
FL. K. McKOWN is the owner of PEOPLE'S PHARMACY that is currently located in the business space 
vacated by WILSON DRUG. K. McKOWN said the owner of WILSON DRUG, DUANE McKOWN, is her ex- 
husband. K. McKOWN resigned from her position as President of DRM ENTERPRISES, INC./D.B.A. WILSON 
DRUG on 05/25/12 (Exhibit 3). K. McKOWN is no longer associated with Wilson Drug. 

INV FORM 300, Revised 02/08, Created 07/02 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE T CASE JMBER: 201307691 

Interview of DUANE McKOWN — Owner of WILSON DRUG ) 
DUANE McKOWN 
P.O. Box 402 
Placida, FL 33946 
863-712-4011 

On 05/30/13, Investigator SCOTT MARTIN interviewed DUANE McKOWN. D. McKOWN is the owner of 
WILSON DRUG. D. McKOWN said he is currently a licensed pharmacist and no longer owns any pharmacy 
business since his divorce from KAREN MOKOWN. D. McKOWN said he did not notify the Florida Division of Corporations or the Board of Pharmacy of WILSON DRUG'S dissolution. D. McKOWN said he would consider 
the Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form that he received from the Tampa ISU office. 

On 07/03/13, Investigator MARTIN received the signed Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form from D. 
McKOWNJ. 

Investigator's : 
A Letter of Representation was received from D. McKOWN'S attorney, AS. WEEKLEY, on 06120113. 
WEEKLEY needed clarification that D. McKOWN'S pharmacist license would not be affected if a Voluntary 
Relinquishment of License Form was signed for WILSON DRUG. WEEKLEY was provided information 
explaining the scope of this investigation was limited to the WILSON DRUG pharmacy license. 

INV FORN 300, Revised 02/08, Created 07/02 

Page 4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Detail by Entity Name Page 1 of2 

No Events No Name History 

Return to Search Results 

LEntity Name Search 

Detail by Entity Name 

Florida Profit Corporation 

DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. 

Filing Information 

Document Number 
FEIe'EIN Number 
Date Piled 
State or Country 
Status 

Principal Address 

SOUTH CENTRAL AVE 
LAKELAND, FL 33815 

Changed: 04/16/2007 

Mailing Address 

P0 BOX 2969 
LAKELAND, FL 33806-2969 

Changed: 04/29/2009 

GUARD, JR., PIERCE J 

SOUTH FLORIDA AVENUE 
LAKELAND, FL 33813 

Name Changed: 12/22/2009 

kddress Changed: 12/22/2009 

Officer/Director Detail 

NONE 

Reports 

Report Year 
2010 
2011 

2012 

n 
5/29/2013 7J 

834597 
593054487 
02/27/1991 

FL 

ACTIVE 

Registered Agent Name & Address 

Piled Date 
01/05/2010 

06/14/2011 
04/25/2012 

Document Images 



Uetai! by Lntity Name Page 2 of 2 

05/25/2012 — Off/Dir Resignation 

04/25/2012 — ANNUAL REPORT 

06/14/2011 — ANNUAL REPORT 

01/05/2010 — ANNUAL REPORT 
Home Contact Us 

12/22/2009—ANNUAL REPORT! 

04/29/2009 — ANNUAL REPORT 

04/07/2008 — ANNUAL REPORT! 
04/1 6/2007 — ANNUAL REPORT! 

04/20/2006 — ANNUAL REPORT! 

/14/2005 — ANNUAL REPORT! 
04/08/2004 — ANNUAL REPORT! 

04/11/2003 — ANNUAL REPORT! 

04/22/2002 — ANNUAL REPORT 

04/12/2001 —ANNUAL REPORT! 

04/17/2000 — ANNUAL REPORT! 

04/15/1 999— ANNUAL REPORT! 

04/24/1998--ANNUAL REPORT! 

04/17/1997--ANNUAL REPORT! 

04/30/1996--ANNUAL REPORT! 

13/I 995— ANNUAL ! 

5/29/2013 7j7_. 

Searches Forms Help 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 
1 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 
S._niir 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 1 
View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

No Events No Name History 

Return to Search Results 

I 
I 

C and Pnhiclec 

State of Florida, 



2012 FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT FILED 
Apr 25, 2012 DOCU M ENT# S34597 Secretary of State 

Entity Name: DRM ENTERPRISES, INC. 

Current Principal Place of Business: New Principal Place of Business: 

437 SOUTH CENTRAL AVE 
LAKELANO, FL 33815 US 

Current Mailing Address: New Mailing Address: 

PD BOX 2969 
LAKELAND, FL 338062969 US 

FEI Number: 59-3054487 FE! Number Applied For ( ) I Number Not Applicable ( ) Certificate of Status Desired 

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: Name and Address of New Registered Agent: 

GUARD, JR., PIERCE J 
4200 SOUTH FLORIDA AVENUE 
LAKELAND, FL 33813 us 

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both, 
in the State of Florida. 

SIGNATURE: 

Electronic Signature of Registered Agent Date 

OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS: 

Title: O 
Name: McKOWN, KAREN 
Address: 6744 CRESCENT WOODS CIR 
City-St-Zip: LAKELAND, FL 33813 US 

I hereby certify that the information indicated on this report or supplemental report is true and accurate and that my electronic 
signature shall have the same legal effect as if made under oath; that lam an officer or director of the corporation or the receiver 
or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 607, Florida Statutes; and that my name appears above, or 
on an attachment with all other like empowered. 

SIGNATURE: KAREN MCKOWN P 04/2512012 
Electronic Signature of Signing Officer or Director Date 

13 



(Requestor's Name) 
1101 ¶J 

I I 
UI Iih L Uk h 

D ICK-UP 0 MAIL 

(Business Entity Name) 

(Document Number) - .— - ;; 
— 

Certified Copies 

_______ 

Cerbficates ol Status 

_______ 

e Pi c.P 

-n — 
Special Instructions to Filing Officer 

Office Use Only 



I DIRECTOR RESJGNATION 
FOR A 25 

) (Signature 

FILING FEE iS $35.00 

Make checks payable to florida Department of State and mail to: 

Amendrncnt Sectiun 
isitin (II COrporations 

PA). Iox 6327 
ialluhüssce. F:kr;du 32314 

PS 

hereby resign as 
(Title) 

(I )* 'conical Nuin her. I k ni wo) , a corporation organized under the laws of the State of 



COVER LETTER 

TO: Amendment Section 
Division of Corporations 

SUBJECT: 4 
(Name of Corporation) 

DOCUMENT NUMBER:__________________________________ 
The enclosed Resignation of Registered Agent lhr a Corporation and fee are submitted for , 
Please return all correspondence concerning this matter to the 

(Name ol Pers 

anie o(Firn,l 

/ (Address) 

Zip Code) 

For further inibrrnation concerning this matter, please call: 

(Name of Person) 

Enclosed is a check made payable to the Florida Department of' State for $87.50 lhr an live corporation 
or $35.00 for an administratively dissolved. voluntarily dissolved or withdrawn corporation. 

Street 
Amendment Section 
Division olCorporations 

Building 1 Executive Center Circle 
Tallahassee. FL 32301 

n-l/t2 
p 

Mailino Address: 
Section 

Division ol Corporat 
Post Office Box 6327 

323 4 

(Area Code & Daytirfie Telephone Number) 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

12-2012 
Date 

FiIe# 10881 

nsp# 108141 

ROUTiNE U CHANGE LOC Li NEW Li CUERENIL'? NOT OPERATING GRANGE OWNER (ON AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, DA STATUTES 

i 
FLORiDA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALT 
IVW.DOftSTATE.FLUS 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
DRM ENTERPRISES INC 

DOING BUSINESS AS 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18748 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
12/12/2012 

DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 
WLSON DRUG 

KENNETH VV FUQUA STREET ADDRESS TELEPHONE it EXT. 
4977 US HWY 98 NORTH 

CITY COUNTY 

(863) 683-2807 I 

STATEIZIP PRESCRiPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LAKELAND 63 33809 
LICENSE // 

11329 
PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS 

I 
REGISTERED r/INTERN/TECHNICIAN UCENSE if 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday! Thursday Friday 
I 

Saturday Sunday 
Open 

I 
2. 

Close 
I 

I Rx department hours openS days for 40 hours per weaN. ]64816-26.1081, [ -i — 

2 Pharmacy techniCians properly identified and supervised. 64816-27.420. F.A.CJ 
3 Pharmacist on duty when Rx department open. 64816-28,109, FAC.) — . 

4 Proper signs displayed. 465.025(71. F.S.] 64B16-26.109(l), FAG.] 64816-28.1081. F.A.C.] 84816-28.1035. F.A.C.] (64816-27.1001, FAG.] 
S A verbal and printed offerto counsel is made to the patientor the agent. 64016-27.820(1), FAG.] 
BPrescriptiort department has convenient sink/running water. f64B16-28.102(1). F.A.C.] 
7 Prescription department clean and safe. (64816-22.102(4), F.A.C.] — 

- 8 Proper equipment and rererences as required. 816-28.102(o)(a). FAG.] . 

9 Medication properly labeled. (465.0255, F.S.) 64816-28.108. FAG.] 
10 Expired medications removed from the shelves. 64816-28.110, F.A.C I — 

COil Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. 766.101. F.S.] 184816-27.300. FAG.] : 12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing Of controlled substances. 465.022(41, ) 
13 Prescriptions havc the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. 893.04(1)1 ) 6. 64616-28.140(3)(b), FAG.) —. 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient orofile records. 164816-27.800. FAG.] 
15 All controfed substance prescriptions contain information required. 883.04. [ -- 
16 Prescriptions for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity antI dale 

meet the requirements of (456.42(2), F,S.). 

17 Prescriptions may not be filled in excess of one year or six months her controls from the dare written. 893.04(1){g), F.S.) (64816-27.211 FAG.] 
ill Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis arid available for inspection. 893.07(1){a). ES.) 
19 DEA 222 order forms properly completed, 893.07, F.S.) . 

20 Controlled substance records and Rx information in computer syslem is retrievable. 21CFR 1306.22] 184816-28.140. FAG.) — 

21 Controlled substance records maintained for4 years. 4s5.022l12)(b), P.S.] — 

22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. ]21CFR 1306.22(b)(3)) 64816-28.140l3Xb), F.A.C.] 

, 

23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any Instance f fraudulent prescriptions withie 24 hours or dose of business cii nerd business day of learning of instance. 
I Reports include all required inlorrnation. 465.015(3), P.S.] ' 

L24 Record of theft or significant loss of all controlled substances Is being maintained arid is being reported to the sheriff within 24 hours of discovery. (893.07(5). F.S (465015 F S.] J]"fl• 
25 Pharmacy is reporting to the PUMP wiThin 7 days of dispens)ng controlled substance. (893.055)4). F.S.] 

r i 

26 Pharmacy with a retail wholesaler permit is reporting sates to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th Of the following month. 
(499.0121(14), F.S.] 

27 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. 64816-27.210, F.A C.] — 

128 
Compounding records properly maintained. 64816-28.140(4), F.A.C.J — — 

29 Unitdose records properly maintained. .S.] 64816-28.118. FAG.) M —- 1 
30 Pedigree records retrievable. ]84F-1 2.01 2(3)(a)2., (d). FAG.] N — El Note:lt establishment is engaged in parenteralIeriteral compounding, a separate inspection form should be completed. — 

Remarks 

This pharmacy has not been operational since 05-1 5-12 when the location was taken over by PH 26163. The PDM listed here is the PDM for PH 21163 

1NV359 Revised 5/12,12/11,10/11,9111,10110 10/09,5/00,12102. 12/80 

I have read and have had Isis inspection report and lhe laws and regulations concerned herein explained, mid do affirm 1/151 tEe inlormation given Itersin is (rue and correcl 10 the scsi of my knowledge. I have received a copy 0 
tIle Licensee tEll of RigiW 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Not Operat)ng . ... 

ID till7 

oivessrgasor/or, rnarrnacrsr oignaturm 

t 

E7ff# 



FiIe# 19148 

Insp# 115186 

Institutiona RepresentatIve 
INV3S9 Revised 12/11,10/11,8/11,10/10.10)05,5/06,12/02,12/00 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARThIENT OF HEALTh 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

RIYJTINE ] Chtfl'lGE 10011] NEW ] ear ea 
INSPECTION AUTHORIT( - CHAPTER 465017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

FLORmA '2r 
rfW DORSTATE.FLUS 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
PEOPLES PHARMACY. INC 

PERMIT NUMBER DAlE OF INSPECTION 
511412012 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

KENNETH W FUQUA STREET ADDRESS TELEPHONE # EXT. 
4977 HWt' 98 NORTH 863-858-4444 

CITY COUNTY STATE/ZIP PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER UCENSE# 
LAKELAND 63 33809 11329 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
REGISTERED PHARMACISTIINTERNTrEcHNICIAN LICENSE # 

Surtday ,1. 

Open OA I N/A 2. 

Close 6P 2P NJA 3. 

SATISFACTORY N(A YES NO 

1 Rh department hours open 5 days for 40 hours per week 64816-28.1081 FAG.] .— 

2 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and stipervised. 64B1 6-27.420, FAG] 
- 

3 Pfitrrrrraciston duty when Rx department open. .28.109. F AC] — 

4 Propersignsdisplayed. 465.025(7), 64316-28.109(1), -28.1081, F.A.C.) (64816-281035, )(64816-27.1001, ] : 
A vstbal and printed oilier to counsel is made to the patient or the patient's agent (64816-27.820(1), F.A.C.) 

6 Prescription department has convenient sin k/running aster -28.102(l), F.A.CJ — 

7 Prescription department clean and sate. (64816-28.102(4), F.A.C.I 

S Proper equipment and references as required. )(a), FAG.] 
9 Medication property labeled. (465.0255, P.S.) (84816-28.108, ) 
10 Expired mnedimtions removed from the (64816-28.110, FAG.] - - 

11 COt Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. (766.101, ES] (64B16-27.300, FAG.] 

12 Board-approved Pohcy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. (485.022(4). F S( 

13 Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmnacats. j893.04(1)(c) 6, F.S.] ), FAG.] 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. (64816-27.800, F.A.C.] 

15 AU controlled substance prescriptions contain information required. (893.04, P.S.] 

16 Prescriptions for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor arid the quantity and date 

— - 

meet the requirements of 456.42(2), P.S.]. 

17 Prescriptions may not be tilled in excess 01 one year or six months tom controls from the date wrhten. (893.04(1)19), F S.] -27.211, FA.C.J 

18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for inspecaion. (895 07(1)(a), P.S.) 

19 DEA 222 order forms properly completed. 893.07. F.SJ 

20 Controlled substance records end Ro information in computer system is retrievable 21CFR 1386.22](64816-28.140, FAG.] 
— 

21 Controlled substance records maintained for 4 years. ]465.022(12)(b), F.S.] 

— 

22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. 21CFR 1306.22(b)(3)] )(b), F.A.C.] 

23 Pharmacy is reporting to lawenforcernent any instance of fraudulent prescriptions 

— - 

wIthin 24 hours or close of business on next business day of learning of instance 
Reports include all required informal/on. 465.015(3), F.S.) 

i24 Record of theft or signifIcant toss of at controlled substances is being maintained and a being reported to the sheriff seth/n 24 hours of discovery. 893.07(5), E.S( (465.015, P.S.) 

25 Pharmacy is reporting to the POMP within 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), P.S.] I 

26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler permits reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 
499.0121(14), F.S.( 

27 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. (64816-27.210, F.A.C.( 
>1 

28 Compounding records properly maintained. 84816-2770/). P.A.C.)* 

.29 Unit close records properly maintained. 465 016(1)(l), ES.) (64818-28.118, FAG.] 

30 Pedigree records retrievable -12012(3)ta)2.,(d), FAG.] 

— 

— 

Note: If esthblishmrrent is engaged in leriteral compoanding, a separate ntspection form should be 

Remarks: -. 

This is a Change of Ownership inspection. The Change of Ownership inspection has been completed and passed. 

I have read arid have had lids irrspediofl report arid the lawn and regdatsnn concerned herein explained, arid do affirm that the inforrrtaion given herein is true arid correct In the best of sty knowledge. I have received a copy Si 

the Licensee Sit ef Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Karen MCKOWn, Office Manager 

05-14-2012 
Date 

ID till7 

InvssttgatorfSr. Sigr.ature 



CONFIDENTIAL 



30 

j 



- 
-.

 





oi
:' 

1T
/2

ffl
3 

'I 

O
F 

hE
A

L
T

H
 

uf
 

if 
i:l

or
id

.a
 

• 

.7
 

33
80

9 
p.

 

2 
¶ 

T
E

C
H

N
çE

A
N

 

, 

R
A

R
O

 A
P 

1 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of alt people in Florida through integrated 
state. county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John iL Armstrong, MD, FAGS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Heafthiest State in the Nation 

EVIDENCE CONTROL FORM 

Case Number 2013-07691 Office Property Receipt Number 1.43 . Time 
SO 

Name 

Address: 

/a Phone: 

Obtained By Scott Martin. 1511 Phone 813-871-7425 

Address: 6800 , Dale Hn Sic. 220: Tampa, FL 33614 

Received By Date 

Address Phone 

Ciry State Zip 

Destroyed By 
m 1 2 3 4 5 6 

Name 
Witness________ 
Remarks 

Date 

tNV FORM 342. Created 10/02 
'7 

In COWRCIEWTEAI 

Item # Ouantiiy ption 
1- 1 tone) CD I lone) Compact Disc containing 3 (three) photoeraphs of abandoned 
2- 
3- 

4- 

5- 

I hereby acknowledge that the above list represents all property impounded byrne in the official pfl'rmanc of m 
Investigator for the Department of Health. 

— investieaior's Signature 
CHAiN OF CUSTODY 

Item# 
I 

2 

RELEASEITh 

Name: 
Signature: 

RECEIVED BY 
F 

Date/Time 
Signature: 
Name: 
Signature: 

PURPOSE OP CHANGE OF CUSTODY 

r 
c- 

Name: Name: 
3 Signature: 

Name: 
Signature: 1 

Name: 
4 Signature: 

Name: 
Signature: 
Name: 

F 

5 Signature: 
Name: 

Signature: 
Name: 

I 

6 I Signature: 

[ 
Name: 

Signature: 
Name: 

Returned To 
Item 1 2 3 4 5 6 

Final Disnosition 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


07103/2013 15:44 sowski 1155 /004 

• .. 

Vwi M SCFTUL1F J S'K\ ') IJi\(LAI 
Cciu' 

d — M I \I t j) 
1 lu \\J(. 

AT ORNn'', 4.1' LAW .'-. As Uth WI I IR M 3) 

VIA us; IL 
M. Martin alist ft ida i)epu went ol I lcdltli 

N. Dak 220 
Tanipa, FL 33614 . 

Phainiics Liccrp,c 1 S748 
Cas- 

Mr. MarI,ii( 

I pie ise kid the Ynlunt in RLisrsquichmc n tf Ph I No I S74S Lu 
Wibon Drug h hds betr utcd i ,. Itu',stu n I his is itted on beh i o I 

Mr \1 Sown Ow ttkphonc undci i'fl ft n ill no ..Ekt.t on i Mt. i 

'oii our coopcrauon in thh rnaner and ' he 1 UK in 

any ljniis please •ftt'e to contacu 

M.D. :.np £ 

c. n ca 
MKUWIi 

B&UBfl 

V ' Nuk'ti I A S K I F L')R 1 1 '7( ni 1 i ) j221 I h i'IIQ\i ) 1 IS5Q nSJM 

rn 



0710312013 15:45 Nele Pffwlowcki 1155 /004 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh, 
Petitioner, 

v. DOR Case No. 2013-07691 

DRM Enterprises, Inc./DBA Wilson Drug, Pharmacy 
Respondent. 

VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent DRM Enterprises, Inc./DBA Wilson Drug, Pharmacy, license No. 18748, 

hereby voluntarily relinquishes Respondent's license to practice pharmacy in the State of 

Florida and states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this luntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further admlnisbttlve action with respect b this cause. Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary 

ReUnquishment shall be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license 

pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes, As with any disciplinary action, this 

reUnquishment will be reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank as disciplinary 

action. Ucensing authorities in other states may impose discipline in their jurisdiction 

based on discipline taken in Florida. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacy in the State 

of Florida. 

NV FORM 425, Revised Created 02-W 



0710312013 15:45 Net PmAowski 221 1155 P.0031004 

, 
3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing pharmacy immediately 

upon executing this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent further agrees to refrain from 

the practice of pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become public record and 

remain public record and that information is immediately accessible to the public. 

S. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating 

this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the s acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own 's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter, 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this 

37 



0710312013 15:45 1155 P.0041004 

. 
Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the 

Board, or any of members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DATED this 
r 

day of 

________________________ 

2013. 

DRM Enterprises, Inc. 

STATE OF_________ 
COUNTYOF 

Before me, personally appeared b L*PJ e 
, whose identity is 

known to me or who produced R 1) L - (type of identification) and 

who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

______ 

day of 31L "N 2013. 

My Commission Expires: 1 (3 



PAUL M. WEEKLEY 
CHRLSTOPHER J. SCHLJLTE 

JUDY M. VALDES 
J. TRAVIS GODWIN 

July 3, 2013 

VIA FACSIMILE — 813-871-7421 
VIA U.S. MAIL 

Mr. Scott M. Martin 
Investigator Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health 
6800 N. Dale Mabry Hwy., Suite 220 
Tampa, FL 33614 

Re: Wilson Drug 
Pharmacy License 18748 
Case Number: 2013-07691 

Dear Mr. Martin: 

Enclosed please find the Voluntary Relinquishment of Pharmacy License No, 18748 for 
Wilson Drug. It has been executed by Duane Russeu McKown. This is submitted on behalf of 
Mr. McKown after our telephone understanding that it will have no effect on Mr. McKown's 
Pharmacist License. 

Thank you for your cooperation in this matter and please be assured of ours in reciprocity 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Enclosure 

cc: DRM Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Wilson Drug 
Duane McKown 

ey, Jr., M.D. 
il: 

1635 NORTH TAMPA STREET 
I 

SUITE U TAMPA, FLORIDA 33602 
(866)674-2327 (TOLLFREE) (813)221-1 154(TELEPH0NE) 5IMILE) 

www. wsv legal .com 

ICA D. DARENEAU 
MAZZONE 

'US" WEEKLEY, JR., M.D. 

Sincerely, 

ASW:np 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. DOH Case No. 2013-07691 

ORM Enterprises, inc./DBA Wilson Drug, Pharmacy 
Respondent. 

_I 
VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent DRM Enterprises, inc./DBA Wilson Drug, Pharmacy, license No. 18748, 

hereby voluntarily relinquishes Respondent's license to practice pharmacy in the State of 

florida and states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment shall be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license 

pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. As with any disciphnary action, this 

relinquishment wiN be reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank as discipl;nary 

action. Licensing authorities in other states may impose discipline in their jurisdiction 

based on discipline taken in Florida. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacy in the State 

of Florida. 

NV FORM 425, Revised 04-13. created 



3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing pharmacy immediately 

upon executing this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from 

the practice of pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become public record and 

remain public record and that uon is immediately accessible to the public. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Reflnquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating 

this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Boards acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this 



Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that considerauon of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the 

Board, or any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DATED this 1 day of '.f 
, 2013. 

DRM Enterprises, Inc. 

STATE OF_________ 
COUNTYOF DaSo-it 

Before me, personally appeared DLuktJC ,whose identity is 

known to me or who produced F) L - (type of identification) and 

who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature appears above. - 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this I day of 1LI , 2013. 

NOTARY 
My Commission Expires: tI( / 5 

Notary Public State of Florida 
Margie I Bergens 

; My Commission DD925467 
Expires 11/2312013 



Blank Page 1 of 1 

Agett, Babette 

To; Green, Yolonda : Martin, Scott M. 

Subject: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Attachments: VR - 201 3-07691 .pdf 

Yolando - please see attached Voluntary Relinquishment for case #: 2013-07691 / Wilson brugs. This was an 
abandoned pharmacy. The owner finally agreed to sign the VR. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to 
contact Scott Martin, the investigator, at 813-871-7425. Thank you. 

Babette Smith Agett R.N. 
estigation Sn pert isor 
DOFf I MQA I 1511 / Tuinpa 
6800 N. Dale Maimj kiwy; Ste. 220 
Tampa FL 33614 
813-8734793; Fax.813-371-7422 

Customer Sotisfoction Survey 

Mission: The mission of the Department of Health is to protect, promote & improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, county & community efforts. 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from state officials regarding state business are public records, which are available to the public and media upon request. Your email communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure, 

There have been changes to the license renewal process. Please visit wvAv.CEAtRenewal,com to learn more. 

- EL IAL 0 
7/3/2013 

L 



HELTh 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201305212 

ERIC HAMILTON CAIRNS, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: ERIC HAMILTON CAIRNS 
2472 DEN ST 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is not required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City 
Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

Executive Director 
OF PHARMACY 

fllorida Department of Health 

/ 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cyprass Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
P1-lONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX : (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



H 

Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Seaetary 

To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of 
FROM: Matthew G. Witters, Assistant General Counsel 

RE: Voluntary Relinquishment 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Eric Hamilton Cairns, R.Ph. 

DOH Case Number 2013-05212 

DATE: August 28, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 

final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: Eric Hamilton Cairns 

Subject's Address of 2472 Den Street 
Record: St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Enforcement Address: 2472 Den Street 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Subject's License No: 34472 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 23481 

Initial Licensure Date: 10/1/1999 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Relinquished license prior to PCP 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: Relinquished license prior to PCP s Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department Of Health/ISU Jacksonville 

Florida Department of Health www.FioridasHealth.com 
Office of the General ' Prosewlion Services Unit TWITEER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLOepartnentoff4ealth 

Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row - Suite 105 VOUTUBE: f]doh 

PHONE: 8501245-4444 • FAX 8501245-4684 



Allegation(s): Section 465.016(1)(e), F.S. (2010, 2011, 2012) 

by violating Chapter 499; 21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392, known 

as the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control 

Act, or Chapter 893 through a violation of 
Section 893.13(7)(a), F.S. (2010, 2011, 2012), by acquiring 

or obtaining, or attempting to obtain possession of a 

controlled substance by misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, 

deception, or subterfuge. 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: None 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Sc 

Complainant/Address: Department Of Health/ISU Jacksonville 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Final Order 
Voluntary Relinquishment — filed 
Board Notification Letter 
Supplemental Investigation 
Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1 thru 6 

MGW/crl 

Florida Depaitnent at Health 
Office of the General Counsel• Services Unit TWfl1ER:HealthyFl.A 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthanls Row- Suite 105 YOtJTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

CASE NO. 2013-05212 
0 
Eric Ha Cairns, R.Ph., 

Respondent 

__________________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER 
BASED UPON A VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, by and through its undersigned counsel, 

and moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order in the above- 

styled cause on a date and time that has been determined and noticed by 

the Board. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner would state the following: 

1. On or about March 29, 2013, a Uniform Consumer Complaint 

was filed with the Department of Health, alleging that the Subject violated 

the provisions of Chapter 456 or Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. In lieu of undergoing further disciplinary proceedings, the 

Respondent returned an executed Voluntary Relinquishment of his/her 

license. 



3. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case shall be furnished to the Board to 

establish a prima fade case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Uniform Consumer Complaint 

WHEREFORE, the parties respectfully request the Board Pharmacy 

of enter a Final Order incorporating the terms of the Voluntary 

Relinquishment of Ucensure. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Mat€hew G. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 091245 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444, ext. 8172 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: @doh.state.fl.us 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

X HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this 29 day of 

2013, to: Eric Hamilton Cairns, 2472 Den Street, St. Augustine, Florida 

32092 

Assistant General Counsel 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH DATE AY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, - -— - - 

Petitioner 

DOH Case Number 2013-05212 

ERIC H. CAIRNS, R.PH., 

Respondent 

____________________________________________________________I 

VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent, Eric H. Cairns, R.Ph, license number 34472, hereby voluntarily 

relinquishes Respondent's license to practice phamiacy in the State of Florida and states as 

follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose fri executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment 

shall be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license pursuant to Section 

456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacist in the State 

of Florida. 

3. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this waiver, 1 P/\CIE 



Respondent understands that the record and complaint become public record and remain 

public record and that information is immediately accessible to the public. Section 

456.073(10) Florida Statutes. 

4. Upon the Boards acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this 

Voluntary Relinquishment. 

5. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Boards acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter, 

6. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this 

Voluntary Relinquishment Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or predude the 

Board, or any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DATED this 23 dayof 

__________________________,2013. 

STATE OF FLORIDA Eric H. Cairns, R.Ph. 
COUNTY OF: Case No. 2013-05212 

Before me, personally appeared C - whose identity is 
known to me by Qo R (type of identification) and who, under 
oath, acknowledges that hpr signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me 
this day of Vukcf . 
My Commission Expires: ) 

ar&% STEPHEN D. MYSER 
027906 



Rick Scott 
Mission: - 

- 

To proted, promote & improve the health - I 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon Genera! & Secretary 

August 29, 2013 

VIA U.S. MAIL 

Eric Hamilton Cairns 
2472 Den Street 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

Re: DOH vs. Eric Hamilton Cairns, R.Ph. 
DOH Case Number: 2013-05212 

Dear Mr. Cairns: 

We are in receipt of your executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. As you are aware by signing 
the Voluntary Relinquishment of License form, you agreed to the following: 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against your license, 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1 )(f), Florida Statutes; 

• you would never reapply for licensure as a Registered Pharmacy Technician in the State of 
Florida; and 

• Voluntarily relinquishing your Florida Registered Pharmacy Technician license may have 
an effect on Registered Pharmacy Technician licenses that you may hold in other states. 

If this is not what you understand, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 850-245- , ext. 8172. Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of Pharmacy 
will take up your request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their meeting scheduled for 
October 9, 2013 at the Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City 
Beach, Florida 32408. You are not required to attend the meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Matthew G. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 

MGW/crl 

Florida Department of Health ldasHealth.com 
Office of the counsel • don Services Unft 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
FACEBOOK:FLDepaitnentolHealth 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row— Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE:850/245-4444• FAX 650/245-466X 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Jacksonville Date of Case: 03/29/13 CaseNumber: 201305212 
Subject: ERIC H. CAIRNS, RPH 

2472 Den Street 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
H (904) 757-7726 

Source: DOHIISU JACKSONVILLE 
1912 Hamilton Street, Unit 104 
Jacksonville, FL 32210 
W (904) 381-6022 

Prefix: 2201 License #: 34472 Profession: Board: Pharmacy Report Date: 

Pharmacist 07/29/13 
Period of Investigation: 07/25/13 — 07/29/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL - 1 

Alleged Violation: F.S. 465.016 (lXd)2.3.(e)(i)(m)(r) "The following acts..." "Being unfit..." "The misuse..." 
"Any abnormal ..." "Violating chapter 499..." "Compounding, dispensing..." "Being unable to practice..." 
"Violating any provision..." F.S. 456.072 (1)(a)(m)(z) "Making misleading..." "Making deceptive..." "Being 
unable to practice..." F.S. 893.02 "The following words..." 

Synopsis: 

This supplemental investigation is predicated upon receipt of a telephone call from FDLE Special Agent G. 
DANDELAKE on 07/25/13 asking this Investigator if a voluntary relinquishment could be drafted for 
CAIRNS as part of a criminal case plea agreement. On 07/25/13 this Investigator left a voicemail message as 
well as sent an email to SHAFFER CLARIDGE, ESQ./PSU asking him to please draft a voluntary 
relinquishment for CAIRNS. On the afternoon of 07/29/13 CLARIDGE sent this Investigator an email 
containing a copy of the voluntary relinquishment, and this Investigator forwarded a copy of the 
relinquishment to DANDELAKE. On 07/29/13 this Investigator along with DANDELAKE traveled to the 
Duval County Courthouse where this Investigator executed the voluntary relinquishment on CAIRNS 
pharmacy license in front of CAIRNS, his attorney and the presiding judge. This Investigator was not able to 
collect CAIRNS' wall and/or wallet licenses due to CAIRNS having resided in a mental health facility since 
05/13. On 07/29/13 this Investigator scanned and emailed a copy of the executed voluntary relinquishment to 
CLARIDGE. CAIRNS plead guilty to Trafficking in Illegal Drugs 4 grams to less than 14 grams of 
Hydrocodone, was adjudged guilty, given 10 years of probation, has to successfully complete the Hanley 
Centers Secured Residential Treatment Program, and has to voluntarily relinquish his Florida pharmacist 
license as well as never seek to reinstate his pharmacist license through the Florida Department of Health. 

EXHIBITS: 

S-I Voluntary Relinquishment (pgs. 2-3) 

— 
Related Case: None 

Investigator/Date: 
A 

Stephen D. Kayser 
MQA Investigator (JI-88 
Distribution: HQ/ISU 

(JUL3j zou 

HO 

-a ) 

INV Form 300 7/02 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

DOH Case 

ERIC H. CAIRNS, R.PH., 

Respondent. 

____________________________________________________________I 

VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent, Eric H. Cairns, R.Ph, license number 34472, hereby voluntarily 

relinquishes Respondent's license to practice pharmacy in the State of Florida and states as 

follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment 

shall be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license pursuant to Section 

456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacist in the State 

of Florida. 

3. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this waiver, 

EXHIBIT ( PAGE 



Respondent understands that the record and complaint become public record and remain 

public record and that information is immediately accessible to the public. Section 

456.073(10) Florida Statutes. 

4. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this 

Voluntary Relinquishment. 

5. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and casts related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

6. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this 

Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the 

Board, or any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DATED this 3 day of Uv 7 , 2013. 

STATE OF FLORIDA Eric H. Cairns, R.Ph. 
COUNTY OF: Case No. 2013-05212 

Before me, personally appeared C. - C 5 whose identity is 
known to me by• u\ t4 (type of identification) and who, under 
oath, acknowledges that hçr signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me 
this day of LTQkcf , 2013. 

My Commission Expires: !4O AR PUBLIC 

STEPHEND.KAYSER 
by Commission # EE 027906 

Expires November 1,2014 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

Case Number 

ERIC H. CAIRNS, R.PH., 

Respondent. 

_________________________________________________________I 

VOLUNTARY REUNOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent, Eric I. Cairns, R.Ph, license number 34472, hereby voluntarily 

relinquishes Respondent's license to practice pharmacy in the State of Florida and states as 

follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in execuUng this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment 

shall be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license pursuant tO Section 

456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacist in the State 

of Florida. 

3. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this waiver, 

EXHIBIT A 



Respondent understands that the record and complaint become public record and remain 

public record and that information is immediately accessible to the public. Section 

456.073(10) Florida Statutes. 

4. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rightsto seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this 

Voluntary Relinquishment. 

5. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

6. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this 

Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the 

Board, or any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DATED this 

_______ 

dayof ULIL/ . 
STATE OF FLORIDA Eric H. Cairns, , 
COUNTY OF: Case No. 2013-05212 

Before me, personally appeared c - 5 whose identity is 

known to me by 2c (type of identification) and who, under 
oath, acknowledges that signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me 
this day of . 2013. 

(1 

My Commission Expires: FIOT'AR+ PUBLIC 

STEPHEN D.KAYSER - 
(.7 Commission U EE 027906 

Expires November ,2014 



Page 1 of2 

Shannon, Denise 

From: Claridge, Shaffer R 

Sent: Wednesday, May 01,201310:33 AM 

To: Shannon, Denise 

Subject: FW: 

R. Shaffer Claridge, Assistant General Counsel 
Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4444 ext. 81 66 

From: Claridge, Shaffer R 

Sent: Wednesday, May 01, 2013 10:33 AM 

To: Kayser, Stephen 
Subject: RE: 

Stephen, 

Find out if you can get access to him, and if so find out if he is being evaluated by anybody at River 
Point. If so, see if he will authorize a release of those evaluations. lie had previously indicated 
willingness to voluntarily relinquish his license. We had wanted the OCE to determine whether or not he 
is mentally competent to voluntarily relinquish. Thanks, 

Shaffer 

R. Shaffer Claridge, Assistant General Counsel 
Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4444 ext. 8166 

From: Kayser, Stephen 
Sent: Wednesday, May 01, 2013 7:06 AM 

To: Claridge, Shaffer R 

Subject: 

5/1/20 13 



Page 2 of 2 

Mr. Claridge, 

Eric Cairns is currently located at River Point Behavioral Health (as a condition of his bail agreement he had to go 
straight into an inpatient mental health facility) which costs roughly $10,000 a month. I am not even sure I am 
allowed to have access to him, and if I did I'm not sure he would be allowed to leave to get evaluated by another 
individual/facility. How would you like me to proceed? 

Ste ph en 

Stephen D. Kayser 
Medical Malpractice Investigator 
Flotida Department of Health 
Investigative Services Jacksonville 
1912 Hamilton Street, Unit 104 ille, FL 32210 
Phone (904) 381-6030 
Fax (904) 381-6050 

Customer Satisfaction Survey 

The mission of the Department of Health is "To protect, promote and improve the health of all people in Florida through 
integrated state, county and community efforts." 

The vision of the Department of Health is "Healthiest Stale in the Nation." 

The values of the Department of Health are: 
Innovation: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely. 
Collaboration: We use teamwork to achieve common goals and solve problems. 
Accountability: We perform with integrity and respect 
Responsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers and engaging our partners. 
Excellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning and continuous performance improvement 

Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. 
Most written communications to or from state officials regarding state business are public records available to the 
public and media upon request. Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

There have been changes to the license renewal process. Please visit www.CEAtRenewalconi to learn more. 

5/1/20 13 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

DOH Case Number 

ERIC H. CAIRNS, R.PH., 

Respondent. 

VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF UCENSE 

Respondent, Eric H. Cairns, R.Ph, license number 34472, hereby voluntarily 

relinquishes Respondent's license to practice pharmacy in the State of Florida and states as 

follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment 

shall be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license pursuant to Section 

456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacist in the State 

of Florida. 

3. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Panel, or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this waiver, 



Respondent understands that the record and complaint become public record and remain 

public record and that information is immediately accessible to the public. Section 

456.073(10) Florida Statutes. 

4. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this 

Voluntary Relinquishment. 

5. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

6. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this 

Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the 

Board, or any of its members, from further participation, cons!deration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not by the Board. 

DATED this 

________ 

day of 

__________________________________, 

2013. 

STATE OF FLORIDA Eric H. Cairns, R.Ph. 
COUNTY OF: Case No. 2013-05212 

Before me, personally appeared 

_______________________________ 

whose identity is 

known to me by 

_______________________________ 

(type of identification) and who, under 
oath, acknowledges that her signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me 
this 

______ 

day of 

_____________________ 

2013. 

My Commission Expires: NOTARY PUBLIC 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Jacksonville Date of Case: 03/29/13 Case Number: 201305212 
Subject: ERIC H. 9 RPH 

2472 Den Street 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
H (904) 940-1408 

Source: DOH/ISU JACKSONVILLE 
1912 Hamilton Street, Unit 104 
Jacksonville, FL 32210 
W (904) 381-6022 

Prefix: 2201 License #: 34472 Profession: Board: Pharmacy Report Date: 
Pharmacist 04/16/13 

Period of Investigation: 04/01/13 - 04/16/13 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: F.S. 465.016 (1)(d)2.3.(e)(i)(m)(r) "The following acts..." "Being unfit..." "The misuse.. 
"Any abnormal..." "Violating chapter 499..." "Compounding, dispensing..." "Being unable to practice..." 
"Violating any provision..." F.S. 456.072 (1)(a)(m)(z) "Making misleading..." "Making deceptive..." "Being 
unable to practice..." F.S. 893.02 "The following words..." 

Synopsis: 

This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a complaint submitted by DOHIISU JACKSONVILLE in 
regard to ERIC H. CAIRNS, RPH alleging on 03/27/13 CAIRNS was arrested by FDLE and charged with: 
two counts of theft of a controlled substance; possession of a schedule III or IV with intent to 
sale/manufacture/deliver; and traffic in opium or derivative 4 grams to under 30 kilograms. On 03/24/13 
CAIRNS called the St. Johns County Sheriff's Office and confessed to stealing/diverting numerous controlled 
prescription drugs from Target Pharmacy located at 9525 Crosshill Blvd., Jacksonville, FL 32222 while he 
was employed there as a pharmacist, (Exhibit 1). 

The Subject of this investigation was notified of the investigation by letter dated 04/01/13 and was provided 
with a copy of the Department of Health's Case Summary and a copy of the originating documents submitted 
by DOHIISU JACKSONVILLE, (Exhibit 2). 

A check of DOH computer records revealed CAIRNS is currently licensed as a Pharmacist. CAIRNS' first 
license was obtained on 10/01/99. 

No Patient Notification was necessary in this case. 

CAIRNS, at the time of this Investigation is not known to be represented by legal counsel. . 
-J 

*** CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE *** 

Related Case: None 

/Date: 

Stephen D. Kayser 
Medical Malpractioe 
Distribution: HQ/ISU APR 1 7 2013 

Page 1 

DOH!MQA 

T&ichascee HO 

INV Form 300 /02 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPOr(T NUMBER: 201305212 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1-2 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 3 

ifi. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 4-5 : 
DANIEL KREPS, RPH (PHARMACIST/WITNESS) 5 
KEARA THOMAS, RPT (PHARMACY TECHNICIAN/WITNESS) 6 
JOE COSTELLO (TARGET STORE MANAGER/WITNESS) 7 
SUSAN SALEEB, RPH (DISTRICT PHARMACY MANAGERJWITNESS) 7-8 
BILL CORFIELD (SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS MANAGERJWITNESS) 8 
ERIC CAIRNS, RPH (SUBJECT) 9-10 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary & Attachments 11-24 

2. Notification Letter & Attachments 25-32 

3. Copy of a St. Johns County Sheriff's Office offense report dated 03/24/13 33-35 

4. Copy of a Jacksonville Sheriff's Office field investigation report dated 03/24/13 36-37 

5. Copy of a Jacksonville Sheriff's Office field investigation report dated 03/30/13 38-39 

6. Copy of a Florida Department of Law Enforcement arrest and booking report dated 04/01/13 
40-42 

* EXJI1BITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WIIICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME 
AND ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(1O)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES. 

** THESE RECORDS ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(1O)(a), FLORIDA 
STATUTES, AND COPIES ARE NOT MAINTAINED IN THE JACKSONVILLE 

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES OFFICE. 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPOrcT CASt NUMBER: 201305212 

SYNOPSIS CONTINUATION 

CAIRNS, has been transferred back and forth between a Iockdown mental facility and the Duval 
County Jail (where he is also on lockdown). On 04/01/13 this Investigator traveled to CAIRNS' 
place of residence listed above and hand delivered the Notification letter to CAIRNS' wife and 
informed her to have CAIRNS call this Investigator if he had any questions. On 04/03/13 this 
Investigator traveled to the Duval County Jail, made contact with CAIRNS and let him read the 
Notification letter (he is in solitary confinement and was not allowed to have the letter in his cell). 
A copy of the Notification letter was left with a correctional officer with instructions to place it with 
CAIRNS' possessions. 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPOr<T CASt NUMBER: 201305212 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of ExhjbjtsfRecordslDocuments 

Exhibit 1 is a Case Summary and attachments. The attachments include the following: 
Department of Health Healthcare Practitioner Complaint form dated 03/28/13. 

• Jacksonville Sheriff's Office arrest and booking report 2013208317 dated 03/27/13. 
o Copy of an email received on 03/28/13 from Special Agent 0. DANDELAKE of the FDLE 

regarding CAIRNS arrest. 
• Copy of an arrest warrant in FDLE case -18-0217 indicating the following bonds to be 

placed with each charge: $5,003 for grand theft of a controlled substance; $5,003 for grand 
theft of a controlled substance; $10,003 for possession with intent to sell, manufacture or 
deliver a controlled substance defined by F.S. 893.13 (1)(a)(2); and $50,003 for trafficking in 
Hydrocodone greater than 28 grams. 
Copy of an affidavit for arrest warrant for CAIRNS dated 03/27/13. 

Exhibit 3 is a copy of a St. Joim's County Sheriff's Office Offense Report dated 03/24/13 indicating 
they responded to CAIRNS' residence in reference to suspicious circumstances, and CAIRNS 
informed them for the past two years he had been stealing prescription medications from Target 
pharmacy located at 9525 Crosshill Drive, Jacksonville, FL 32222 while he was the pharmacy 
manager received on 04/03/13 via hand delivery from FDLE. CAIRNS admitted to recently stealing: 
Alprazolam 1mg 500 count, Alprazolam 2mg 500 count, 3 bottles of testosterone, Zolpiden 10mg 500 
count (two bottles), Hydrocodone 10/500mg 500 count (two bottles) and Oxycodone ER 80mg count 
11 (expired medication). CAIRNS further stated that he had taken the aforementioned medications 
and buried them in his parent's front yard in Windamere, FL. Included with the offense report is a 
copy of a sworn affidavit dated 03/24/13 written by CAIRNS admitting to stealing the drugs from 
Target pharmacy. 

Exhibit 4 is a copy of a Jacksonville Sheriff's Office iSO) field investigation report dated 03/27/13 in 
which iSO patrol officer R.J. REEVES met with CAIRNS at the Target pharmacy where CAIRNS 
was a pharmacis; received on 04/03/13 via hand delivery from FDLE. CAIRNS again admitted that he 
had been stealing drugs from the Target pharmacy and that he felt Target was on to him so he wanted 
to "come clean about his activities." CAIRNS then began to make statements of having suicidal 
ideations and threats to possibly harm himself, and out of concern for CAIRNS' safety and the safety 
of others CAIRNS was taken into protective custody under the provisions of the "Baker Act" and 
transported to the Mental Health Center of Jacksonville. 

Exhibit 5 is a copy of a JSO field investigation report dated 03/30/13 in which patrol officer T.L. 
TERRELL responded to a call from FDLE regarding an individual who was parked in the law 
enforcement parking lot of the FDLE Jacksonville Communications Center who indicated he had an 
explosive device under the driver's seat of his vehicle received on 04/03/13 via hand delivery from 
FDLE. Nothing out of the ordinary was discovered under the driver's seat of the vehicle or anywhere 
else in the vehicle. The vehicle belonged to CAIRNS and CAIRNS was the driver of the vehicle and 
when asked why he was there, CAIRNS responded he was trying to get in touch with the FDLE agent 
to meet with DANDELAKE. CAIRNS indicated he had been arrested on 03/27/13 for stealing 

INV Form 300 /02 Page 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPCJr<T CASc NUMBER: 201305212 

prescription medication from a Target pharmacy where he worked and that he had been seen at mental 
health clinics before. CAiRNS was again transported to the Mental Health Center of Jacksonville 
under the provisions of the Baker Act and placed into protective custody for his and others safety. 

Exhibit 6 is a copy of a FDLE arrest and booking report dated 04/01/13 indicating DANDELAKE was 
contacted by CAIRNS on the morning of 03/30/13 and stated that he believed he was being watched 
and received on 04/03/13 via hand delivety from FDLE. Later that morning CAIRNS arrived 
at the FDLE Operations Center and informed law enforcement officers that he had an explosive device 
in his vehicle. CAIRNS was subsequently placed in the Mental Health Clinic of Jacksonville under 
the Baker Act provision and was released into the custody of FDLE and placed in the Duval County 
Jail under the charge: Bomb, false report about planting bomb or explosive. 

INVESTIGATOR'S NOTE 

On 04/03/13 this Investigator sent a copy of FDLE'S video interview of CAIRNS directly to JENIFER 
FRIEDBERG/PSU for her review. As of the writing of this report this Investigator has not been able 
to secure another copy of the video interview. Once another copy has been obtained by this 
Investigator it will be forwarded to the Legal Department in the form of a supplemental report. 

INTERVIEW OF DANIEL KREPS, RPH ) 
Pharmacist 
Target Pharmacy 
9525 Crosshill Blvd. 
Jacksonville, FL 32222 
W (904) 248-4367 

On 04/08/13 this Investigator interviewed KREPS via telephone at his place of employment listed 
above. KIREPS essentially stated: 

• He worked with CAiRNS for about three and a half years at Target Pharmacy, but he worked 
an opposite shift and only saw him a few hours each month. 

• He caimot say whether CAIRNS' behavior was different, but the technicians who worked with 
CAIRNS seemed to think something was different. 

• He noticed more of a negative attitude change in CAIRNS over the past few months regarding 
work and work activities. 

• A pharmacy technician reported to him that she saw CAIRNS take a prescription bottle from 
the counter and place it in his pocket. 

• The pharmacy technician could not tell what kind of medication was in the bottle, but the next 
day a patient came to pick up a prescription for Norco 10/325mg 120 count, and the 
prescription could not be located in the will call bin or anywhere else and had not been signed 
for. 

KREPS had no additional information to add at this time. 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 5 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPCJI?r CASc NUMBER: 201305212 

INTERVIEW OF KEARA THOMAS, RPT 

Registered Pharmacy Technician 
Target Pharmacy 
9525 Crosshill Blvd. 
Jacksonville, FL 32222 
W (904) 248-4367 

On 04/08/13 this Investigator interviewed THOMAS via telephone at her place of employment listed 
above. THOMAS essentially stated: 

• She worked with CAIRNS for approximately two and a half years. 
o On one particular instance she remembers seeing CAIRNS take a prescription bottle and place 

it in his pocket, but she could not see what medication was in the bottle. 
• The next day a patient came to pick up their prescription (Hydrocodone /325mg count 120) 

and the prescription was not in the will call bin and could not be found and she had to print 
another label and refill the prescription. 

* She remembers filling the original prescription for Hydrocodone 10/325mg count 120 for that 
patient the day CAIRNS placed a prescription bottle in his pocket. 

• There were other instances where there have been pills (she is not sure of what type) in clear 
plastic Target bags (used for when a label is too small to be placed on the box/container) in the 
back of the pharmacy. 

• She is not sure why the bags were in the back of the pharmacy in CAIRNS' box because there 
is no need for any medications to be back there. 

• She noticed significant changes in CAIRNS' behavior over the past few months. 
• CAIRNS was usually happy, open and talkative with her and other staff members at Target. 
• Within the past few months CAIRNS became very angry, short and agitated and directing his 

agitation at her. 
• CAIRNS would tell her things like "your attitude is wearing thin with me." 
• Then CAIRNS' behavior would change and he would be very apologetic and offer to buy her 

lunch to make up for it. 
• During one conversation with CAIRNS, he asked her if the camera angles had been changed, 

and she replied (jokingly) that she did not know and asked "why, do you have something to 
hide?" 

• CAIRNS behavior then started to become very paranoid. 
• CAIRNS stated to her "If I go down I'm taking everyone in this store down with me." 
• CAIRNS then shut down and said very little about anything to anyone. 
• She has never seen CAIRNS act the way he did the past few months. 

THOMAS had no additional information to add at this time. 

INV Form 300 7102 Page 6 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPCirET CASt NUMBER: 201305212 

INTERVIEW OF JOE COSTELLO 

Store Manager 
Target 
9525 Crosshill Blvd. 
Jacksonville, FL 32222 
W (904) 248-4366 

On 04/08/13 this Investigator interviewed COSTELLO via telephone at his place of employment listed 
above. COSTELLO essentially stated: 

• He was on vacation when CAIRNS turned himself in to St. Johns County Sheriffs Office, and 
when he came back there was a string of emails regarding CAIRNS asking about taking a leave 
of absence. 

• He received a phone call from the store that CAIRNS had turned himself into authorities. 
o He had noticed some behavioral changes with CAIRNS over the past few months, and an in- 

house investigation was started but he was not part of that investigation. 
a He does not believe that the investigation turned up anything or action would have been taken. 
• CAIRNS had no disciplinary problems and had worked at that particular Target pharmacy for 

approximately 5 to 6 years. 

• CAIRNS was terminated from Target pharmacy. 
• He is not sure if an inventory check has been perfonned to get a count of what was allegedly 

taken by CAIRNS. 

COSTELLO had no additional information to add at this time. 

INTERVIEW OF SUSAN SALEEB. RPH ) 
District Pharmacy Manager 
Target Pharmacy 
2402 Ridgemoor Drive 
Orlando, FL 32828 
C (321) 262-4241 

On 04/08/13 this Investigator interviewed SALEEB via telephone at her place of employment listed 
above. SALEEB essentially stated: 

• She was on maternity leave from 12/13/12 through 03/11/13, and when she came back from 
leave she had noticed that CAIRNS' behavior had changed. 

• There was an employee in the pharmacy that noticed some suspicious behavior from CAIRNS. 
• At that point they started to monitor CAIRNS via video, but were unable to find anything of 

use. 

• Starting on 03/19/13 she started to get a string of emails from CAIRNS about him asking how 
to go about requesting/taking a leave of absence. 

• She responded to the first couple of emails telling him where to access certain forms, but the 
emails started getting progressively stranger. 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 7 



DOFf INVESTIGATIVE (T CASa NUMBER: 201305212 

She was advised not to respond to the latter emails, and the last email she received was on 
03/24/13. 

• On 03/24/13 CAIRNS turned himself into authorities and admitted to stealing drugs from the 
Target pharmacy. 

o She has not had any correspondence with CAIRNS since he sent the last email on 03/24/13. 
o CAIRNS was the pharmacy manager and had no disciplinary ups that she is 

aware of. 
o Even though she is the District Pharmacy Manager, CAIRNS as a pharmacy manager reports 

directly to the store manager. 

SALEEB had no additional information to add at this time. 

INTERVIEW OF BILL CORFIELD ) 
Special Investigations Team Leader 
Target 
4750 Millenia Plaza Way 
Orlando, FL 32839 
C (904) 534-3696 

On 04/03/13 this Investigator interviewed CORFIELD via telephone at his place of employment listed 
above. CORFIELD essentially stated: 

• His investigation kicked off with a pharmacy technician that came forward to say that she saw 
CAIRNS take a prescription bottle of medication that had been filled for a patient. 

• The patient came in the next day to pick up the prescription and the prescription was not there 
and another had to be filled for the patient. 

• When CAIRNS was confronted about the missing prescription and about him possibly taking 
the prescription CAIRNS responded "I don't know." 

• Leading up to that incident the Target pharmacy staff indicated CAIRNS' behavior had 
changed over the past few months. 

• Because of CAIRNS' alleged theft of the prescription and suspicious behavior, he reviewed 
video of the pharmacy a week prior to the theft as well as a week after the theft, but nothing 
was on the video regarding the theft or any other actions that led them to suspect theft. 

• The staff did a cursory inventory of all CII'S and CIII'S and nothing was amiss. 

CORFIELD had no additional information to add at this time. 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 8 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPCJFC CASt NUMBER: 201305212 

STATEMENT OF ERIC H. CAIRNS, RPH ) 
2472 Den Street 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
H (904) 584-2363 

On 04/03/13 this Investigator reviewed a video interrogation/interview of CAIRNS by FOLE. 
CAIRNS essentially stated: 

o He called SJCSO on 03/24/13 and deputies were sent to his house. 
e He admitted to the officers that he had been stealing drugs from Target pharmacy for three 

years. 
• He worked for approximately eleven and a hallyears as a pharmacist with Target. 
o It started out with him taking expired medications that people brought back to the store. 
• The expired medications are placed in an "expired bin" and then the drugs are either destroyed 

or sent back to the manufacturer. 
o Then he progressed to stealing drugs from the shelves (Target inventory). 
• He took a lot of Hydrocodone stock bottles 10/500mg count 500. 
• He knew where the camera angles were in the pharmacy and in the store at Target and knew 

how to stay out of their paths. 
• Testosterone and syringes were also something that he stole from the pharmacy. 
• He began injecting himself with testosterone and even injected himself at least one time while 

on duty at Target pharmacy. 
• He buried at least 500 Alprazolam 2mg tablets, 500 Alprazolam 1mg tablets, 1000 

Hydrocodone lO/SOOmg tablets, a couple of vials of testosterone 30mg, an unknown quantity 
of Doxycyclene, an unknown quantity of Omeprazole, 11 tablets of Oxycontin 80mg as well as 
syringes. 

• He and his wife also flushed an unknown number of medications down the toilet at their house. 
• Testosterone cream and androgel (and pump) were also taken from Target pharmacy by him. 
• Sometime in late 02/13 he had a large cardboard box that he filled with stock bottles of 

Hydrocodone, Alprazolam, testosterone/syringes and other drugs, and he placed another empty 
box on top of the box full of drugs and walked out of Target. 

• He was able to take stock bottles of medication because Target wanted a monetary inventory of 
roughly $500,000, and because that particular Target was growing so fast they were holding 
over a $500,000 inventory which allowed him to take inventory to make the numbers come 
down. 

• He started diverting Zopildem 10mg stock bottles and was taking about one tablet a night. 
• The jump from non-controlled medications to controlled medications was made because of 

pain in his head, feet and knees. 
• He has falsified call in prescriptions for controlled drugs, but only to benefit the patient or 

make it easier for the patient. 
• Shortly before the time when he confessed he received a phone call from a Target and had a 

bad feeling about the call, and then he received an email from a "big wig" at Target. 
• His partner was acting thd of weird, asking him questions and giving him contradicting 

statements. 
• He began at that point to feel that Target might be onto his diversion. 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 9 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPO,<T CASt NUMBER: 201305212 

• He denies taking Methadone even though there was a documented shortage in the pharmacy. 
He placed a 500 count stock bottle of Hydrocodone in the back of the pharmacy and informed 
SABRINA WALSH, RPT that he had placed the medication back there for her to do whatever 
she wanted to with them. 

o The reason he called SJCSO is because he thought Target was on to him and that he was going 
to be terminated. 

CAIRNS had no additional information to add at this time. 

On 04/03/13 this Investigator along with FDLE AOl. DANDELAKE traveled to the Duval County 
Jail to speak with CAIRNS. CAIRNS essentially stated: 

• The information contained in the Case Summaiy and Healthcare Practitioner Complaint Form 
seemed pretty accurate and "cut and dry." 

• He indicated that he was not too worried at this point about his pharmacy license because he 
had bigger problems he was facing. 

CAIRNS had no additional information to add at this time. 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 10 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida thmugh integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201301267 

BROTHERS PHARMACY AND DISCOUNT, LLC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: BROTHERS PHARMACY AND DISCOUNT, LLC 
1001 SW 27 AVE 
MIAMI, FL 33135 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. The Respondent is not required to be present at this 
meeting. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City 
Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as 'timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

/? 
L. fry' 

Executive Director 
BpJARD OF PHARMACY 

Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Minion: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

___________ 

of all people in Florida through lnte9rated John H. Annetrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

MEMORANDUM 
Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
Kristal Beharry, Assistant General Counsel 
Voluntary Relinquishment 
DOH v. Brothers Pharmacy and Discount, LLC 

DOH Case Number 2013-01267 

DATE: August 23, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced piathd. t the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. the fdllowing 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: Brothers Pharmacy and 
Subject's Address of 1001 Sw th Avenue 
Record: Miami, FL 33135 
Enforcement Address: 1001 SW th Avenue 

Miami, FL 33135 

23338 Rank: PH 

15864 

4/22/ 2008 

None 

No 

None 
Section 465.023(1)(c) by violating 
Rule 64B16-28.202(3)(a) 

None 

None 

Arturo Yero, Esquire 

Law Offices of Arturo Yero, P.A. 

782 NW Lejune Road, Suite #350 
Miami, FL 33126 
305-444-0884 Telephone 

Complainant/Address: Department of Health/Investigative Services 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Office of the Genni CounselS ProseaiVon Services Unit 

TWflTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way! Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 650/245-4444 FAX 850/245-4683 

HEALTh 
VisIon: To be the Healthiest State in The Nation 

TO: 
FROM: : 
SUBJECT 

Discount, LLC 

6LC 

Subject's License No: 

Licensure File No: 
Initial Licensure Date: 
Board Certification: 
Required to Appear: 
Current IPN/PRN Contract: 
Allegation(s): 

Prior Discipline: 
Probable Cause Panel: 

Subject's Attorney: 



Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment of License 
Voluntary Relinquishment (filed) 
Notification of Letter 
Final Investigative report with Exhibits 1-5 



STATEOF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

CASE 2013-01267 
vw 

BROTHERS PHARMACY AND DISCOUNT, 
Respondent. 

_____________________________________I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER 
BASED UPON A VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, by and through its undersigned counsel, 

and moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order in the above- 

styled cause on a date and time that has been determined and noticed by 

the Board. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner would state the following: 

1. On or about January 16, 2013, a Uniform Consumer Complaint 

was filed with the Department of Health, alleging that the Subject violated 

the provisions of Chapter 464 or Chapter 456, Florida Statutes. 

2. In lieu of undergoing further disciplinary proceedings, the 

Respondent returned an executed Voluntary Relinquishment of his/her 

I icen se. 



3. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case shall be furnished to the Board to 

estabflsh a prima fade case regarding the violations as set forth the 

UnWorm Consumer Complaint. 

WHEREFORE the parties respectfully request the Board of Pharmacy 

enter a Final Order incorporating the terms of the Voluntary 

Relinquishment of Ucensure. 

Respectfully submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4444 telephone 
(850) 245-4683 facsimile 
Florida Bar No. 0078070 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 
foregoing has been provided by .S. mail this day of 

2013, to Arturo Yero, Esquire, Law Offices of 
Arturo 'l'èro, PA., 782 Le Jeune Road, Suite 350, Miami, FL 33126. 

flrkristal 
Assistant General Counsel 



FROM Artwo Vera, P.R 
(WED)RIJG 14 2013 11:25/ST. p 3 

FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF 

STATE OF FLORIDA CLERK 
DEPLny CLERK 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh DATE 

DEPARThENTOF HEALTh, 
itioner, 

v. 
DON Case No. 2013-0126) 

PHARMACY AND OJSCCXJI\Tr, 
spondent. 

I 
VOLUNTARY T OF UCENSE 

Respondent BROTHERS PHARMACY AND DISCOUNT, ftc, hcense number PH 23338, by 

and through its owner/officer, hereby voluntarily reUriquishes Respondent's license to operate as a 

community pharmacy in the State of Florida and states as follows: 

1. Respondents purpose In executny this , Relinquishment is to lijrther 

administrative athon with respect to this cause. Respondent by and through its owner/officer, 

understands that acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment shall be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license pursuant to 

Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent and Its owner/officer agree to never reapply for licensure as a 

communIty pharmacy In the State of lorida. 

3. Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, agrees to voluntarily cease 

operating as a community pharmacy immediately upon executing this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. Respondent, by and through. ownerfofficer,.fur.ther agre s to refrain from 

operating as a cqrnrminity pharmacy uritfl such time as th)s \ luntary Rellriquishqient 

presented to the gq and the Board Iss ties a wn Itten i matter. 

4 In qrder t cojisideration an4 r.esgl!4gci qf action the in a 

public meeting, Responøent, by anø through its being fully advised of the 

BROThERS PIM$A AND DJSçO&iwr, . . No. 



FROM Artwo 
P 4 

consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statitrny pilvilege of confidentiality of Section 

456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable 

Cause Panel, or the Department when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Hadda 

regarding the complaint, the inve.stigabve report of the Department of Health, and all 

other Information obtained pursuant to the Department's investigation in the abovestyled action, 

By signing this waivers Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, understands that the record 

and complaint become public record and remain public record and that information Is Immediately 

accessible to the public. Section 456.073(10) Hot-Ida Statutes, 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, by and 

through its owner/officer, agrees to wa(ve all 'lghts to seek judicial r&ew of, or to otherwise 

thallenge or contest the validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the 

Board incorporating this Voluntary 

6. Petitioner and Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, hereby' agree that 

upon the 's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, eath party shall bear its own 

attome'fs lees and costs related to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent, by and through owner/officer, authorizes the Board to re.vie,, and 

examifle. all cQncerning .conpectbn with !tie Board's 

cçnsideratipn Respondent, flpt* 
y aqq pUwr rø$4 bY the 

Board shall riot prejudi e or preclude the Boarq, or any pf its from further part 

consideration, or resolutjori pf If the frr7ps pf Volyptary are 

not accepted by the Board 

BROS PHARMA V ANP LLC 57 -.. 



FROM Arturo Yero, P. A 
(WEO)AiJ9 14 2013 1:25/sr. k. P S 

DATED this 

________ 

day of 

AND UC 
ih 

unt name) 

8ROThERS PHAW4ACY AND 45 Case No. 
3 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF: 
Berore 
meby 

day of 

My Commission Expires: 

whose Idenbty Is known to S 



Rick Scott 
Mission: I r Governor 
To protect promote & improve the health I 

__________ 

of all people in itegrated John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State Sumeon General & Secetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the 

August 30, 2013 

Arturo Yero, Esquire 
Law Offices of Arturo Yero, P.A. 
782 Le Jeune Road, Suite 350 
Miami, FL 33126 

Re: DOH vs. Brothers Pharmacy and Discount, LLC 
DOH Case Number: 2013-01267 

Dear Mr. Yero: 

We are in receipt of your client's executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. As you are aware by 
signing the Voluntary Relinquishment of License form your client agreed to the following: 

a the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against their license, 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes; 

• he/she would never reapply for licensure as a Profession in the State of Florida; and 
• voluntarily relinquishing his/her Florida Profession license may have an effect on Profession 

licenses they may hold in other states. 

If this is not what your client understood, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 
850-245 11'll ext. 8218. Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy will take up your client's request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their next regularly 
scheduled meeting. Your client is not required to attend the meeting. 

Sincerely, 

eharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

KB/cmn 

Florida Dopaflment of Hoaith www.FiorldssHoatth.com 
of the General Prosecution Unit 1TTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row— Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 'FAX 850/245-4663 



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: MIAMI XI Date of Case: 1/16/2013 Case Number: PH 2013-01267 
Subject: BROTHERS PHARMACY Source: DOH/ISt! 

1001 SW th Avenue 
Miami, FL 33135 
(305)281-8642 

Prefix:2205 License #:23338 Profession: Board: Pharmacy Report Date:4/1/13 
Pharmacy 

Period of Investigation:1/28/13-4/1/13 Type of Report: FINAL REPORT 
Possible violation of SS. 456.072(1 )(k)(dd); 465.016(1 )(r), F.S.; Rules 64B1 6-27.1001; 64B1 6-28.1081; 
64B16-28.202; 64B16-28.203, F.A.C. Violate Statutes/Rules; Fail to perform legal responsibilities 

Synopsis: 

This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a uniform complaint form completed by DOH/ISU which 
indicates a failed pharmacy inspection at BROTHERS PHARMACY AND DISCOUNT PH#23338(Exhibit 
#1). On 1/7/13 a routine inspection was attempted at BROTHERS PHARMACY AND DISCOUNT (PH 
23338), located at 1002 SW 27th Aye, Miami, FL 33135. The pharmacy appears to have been abandoned. 
The Inspector was unable to verify if any drugs remained on premise. The DOH database reflected that a 
closure had not been reported. 

BROTHERS was notified of the investigation by letter, dated 1/28/13 (Exhibit #2) and was provided a copy 
of the CASE SUMMARY and initiating documents from (Exhibit #1). 

A search of the DOH licensure database reveals that BROTHERS is currently licensed as a community 
pharmacy. The pharmacy license is currently listed as delinquent. 

No patients were identified thus no notification was necessary 

BROTHERS is represented by an attorney, ARTURO YERO, 782 NW LeJune Road Suite #350 Miami, 
FL 33126, (305)444-0884. 

BROTHERS written response was received on 2/20/13 

Related Case(s): 20 13-01268 

lnvestigator/D : April 1, 13 

Nei Downs Investigator Ml-207 

April 1, 2013 

Caride Rodriguez Supervisor 

Distribution: HQ/ISU Page 1 

t.'. 

-t 
XNV FORJI 300, Revised 02/08, Created 07/02 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

A 

5 
APR 0 4 13 

/MQA 



DOK INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 201 3-01267 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 : 
STATEMENT OF CHARLES BUFFALINO, SUPERVISORY AGENT, FDLE (WITNESS) 3 
STATEMENT OF BROTHERS PHARMACY (SUBJECT) 3 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary 4-11 

2. Copy of Notification letter, dated 1/28/13 12 

3. Copy of letter of representation/statement from BROTHERS PHARMACY.... 13-14 

4. Copy of last three pharmacy inspections for BROTHERS PHARMACY 15-19 

*5 Copy of FDLE search warrant and related information received from FDLE for 
BROTHERS PHARMACY 20-1 60 

EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND 
ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

INV FORJI 300, Revised , created 07/02 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE.REPORT.. .. CASE NUMBER: 2013-01267 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 
On 3/11/13 this investigator received a call from subject attorney ARTURO YERO who advised 
that BROTHERS may relinquish license. As of date of this report no relinquishment of license 
has been received from BROTHERS. 

Pharmacy license #23338 is currently delinquent in DOH database as of 2/28/1 3. 

of closed pharmacy location included exhibit #1. 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #1 contains the Case Summary and initiating documents. 

Exhibit #2 Copy of Subject Notification letter, dated 1/28/13 

Exhibit #3 Copy of letter of representation/statement from BROTHERS PHARMACY 

Exhibit #4 Copy of last three pharmacy inspections for BROTHERS PHARMACY 

Exhibit #5 Copy of FDLE search warrant and related information received from FDLE for BROTHERS 
PHARMACY 

INTERVIEW OF CHARLES BUFFALINO. SUPERVISORY AGENT, FDLE ) 
Miami Regional Operations Center 
1030 NW 111th Avenue 
Miami, Florida 33172 
(305)470-5500 

On 2/19/13 this investigator was able to speak with Agent BUFFALINO via telephone. BUFFALINO 
confirmed that BROTHERS PHARMACY was no longer operating. BUFFALINO stated that 
pharmacy owner and pharmacy department manager were arrested back in November of 2012 
and he would provide a copy of FDLE warrants to this investigator. He did not have any additional 
information to add at this time. 

Investigator Note: On 3/6/13 this investigator received a copy of FDLE arrest and search 
warrants for BROTHERS PHARMACY from BUFFALINJO (Exhibit #5) 

STATEMENT OF BROTHERS PHARMACY ) 
1001 SW th Avenue 
Miami, FL 33135 
(305)281-18642 

On 2/20/13 this investigator received a written statement from BROTHERS through attorney 
ARTURO YERO. The statement briefly states that pharmacy is no longer operating at location 
1001 SW Avenue Miami, FL 33135 since 1/1/13. He states that the pharmacy followed 
procedure set forth by the FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY. The full statement is avaible in 
exhibit #4. 

Investigator Note: A copy of closure notification letter to the board of pharmacy was attached to 
statement. 

INV FORM 300, Revised 02/08, created 07/02 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
GIWIGE LOC NEW NOT fltatOE 

I 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 458, FLORIDA STAnJTES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
BROTHERS PHARMACY AND DISCOUNT, LLC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
23336 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
1/11/2013 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

W1LUAM T WALKER STREET ADDRESS 
1001 SW27AVE 

TELEPHONE # EXT. 
305-642-1600 

CITY COUNTY 
MIAMI 23 

STATE/ZIP 
33135 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
27392 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED /TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 
Monday Tuesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. 

Open 9am Barn Oem Barn Barn 9am dosed 2. 
Close 5pm 5pm 5pm 5pm 5pm 2pm dosed 3. 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
I Ax department hours open 5 days for 40 hours per weet 64816-28.1081, F.A.C.J — - 

— 
2 PharTmq'tadinldans properly lffied and superdsed. 64816-27.420, ] — - 
3 Pharmadst on duty when c department open. 64816-28.109, FAC.I — — 

4 Propersignsdisplayed. 465.025(7), 64B16-28.109(1), FAG.] 64816-28.1081, FACJ 64B16-26.t035, 84B16-27.1001, F.A.C] — — 

5 A verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to the patient or the patients agent 64816.27.820(l), F.A.C.J — 
— 

6 Presalption department has convenIent sinlclnjnnlng water. 64816-28.102(l), FAG] — 
— 

7 Presaiption department clean and safe. 64816-28.102(4). FAC.] — 
— 

8 Properequipment and references as wed. 64B16-28.102(5)(a), F.A,C.] — 
— 

9 MedIcation properly labeled. 485.0255, F.S.] 64B16-28.108, FAG.] — — 

10 Expired removed fTornthe shelves. 64816-28.110, ] — — 

II CQI Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetIngs. 766.101, ] 64816-27.300, FAG] — 
— 

12 BoerSeppn'jed PoSit3, and Procedure lemented to prevent the tTsUdulent dispensing ot confrolled sutstances. 485.022(4), P.S.) — 

13 Presaiptlons have the date olspensed and dispensing phamiadsts. 893.04(1 )(c) 6, P.S.] 6481 6-28.140(3Xb), FAC.1 
— : — 

14 Pharmacy maintains patent profile records. 64816-27.800, E.A,C] — 

15 u controlled substance pmsaiptions contain infonnalion required. 693.04, F.SJ : : 
16 Presoiptlons (or oonfrolled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescatplion pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 

meet the requirements of 458.42(2), F.S.]. 

17 Presaiptlons may not be filled in excess of one year or c months for controls from the data written. 893.04(1)(g). F.S.j 84816-27.211, FAC.1 
— : 18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis end available for inspedlon. j893.07(1)(a), F.S.J 
— 

19 DEA 222oxr±erfonns properlycompteted. 89Sf?, - — 

20 Conbo4led substance records and Ax information In computer system is rettevable. 21 CPA 1308.22] 64B16-2B.140, F.A.C.J — — X 
21 Confrolled substance records maintained for 4 years. 1485.022(t2)(b), 5.1 — : 22 lled daily log OR printout maintained. I2ICFR 1308.22(b)(3)] 84B16-28.l40(3)(b), FAC.I : : — 
23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any instance of freudulent lptions within 24 hours or dose of business on nerd business day of teaming of instance. 

Reports include at required infonnatlon. 485.015(3), ) 
24 Record of theft or signlfiount loss of all controlled substances in being maintained and is being reported to the sherifF within 24 hours of discovery, 893.07(5), F.S.J 485.015, F.S.] 
25 Pharmacy is reporting to the PDMP within 7 days of dispensing onbolled substance. 893.055(4), ] 
26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler pemtlt Is reporting sales to the ContinUed Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 

499.0121(14), ] 
27 Registered pharrnadst property presating. f64B16-27.21o, FAG.] : : 
28 CompoundIng records properly maintained. 64816-28.140(4), FAC.r 
29 Unit dose records property maintained. .O16(1)Q), F.S.J 64816-28.118, FAG] 

. — - 

30 

. — . 

31 Preparation time does not exceed 1 hour when preparing, and adminstradon begins not later than t hour fotowirig start of Immediate use CSPs. (64816-27.797(1)0), F.A.C.] — — K 
32 Preparation Is properly labeled if preparer does not administer or wiiness adolnist,atlon when preparing immediate-use CSPs, 64816-27.797(1) Q), FAG.) — — 

If establishment is engaged in sterIle oornpounding, a separate inspedlon form should be — — — 

Remarks: Inspector Maldonado (m1185) visited facility on 1/7/2013 to conduct a routine pharmacy inspection and upon arrival found pharmacy to be vecant/abandoned. Inspector 
looked inside and facility seems to be completely empty. Inspector also celled the pharmacy at 305-642-1800 and tha voicemail is hull. 

I have read and have had this inspecton report and The laws and regulafirns cencens herein explained, and do aiffim That the information htrein S true and correct to the best of my isiowledga I have received a copy or 
the Ucensee Bill of Rghls. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Not Available 

01-11-2013 
Date 

ID mil8S 

FiIe# 15864 

Insp# 113346 

FLORIDA 

DOH. STAT E. FL. US 

institruonal Representative 
INVS59 Revised 12/12,5/12, 12/11 10/11,9/It, 10/10,10/09,5/06,12/02,12/00 

Investigator/Sr. Pharmaast Signature I I CIT 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
II1NE CIW4GELOC D NEW Nor D 0W40E Ov*l(ER Jj 

INSFtCTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

NAME OF ESTASUSHMENT 
BROTHERS PHARMACY AND DISCOUNT, LLC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
23338 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
1/24/2012 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER 
FB0852358 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

WiLLIAM T WALKER STREET ADDRESS 
iooi Sw 27 AVE 

TELEPHONE # ExT. 
305-308-6456 

CITY COUNTY 
MIAMI 23 

STATE/ZIP 
33135 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECI-(NICIAN LICENSE # 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. 

Open 9AM 9AM 9AM 9AM 9AM 9AM CLOSED 2. 
Close 5PM 5PM 5PM 5PM 5PM 2PM CLOSED 3. 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
I Rx department hoursopen 5 days for4O hours perweek. 64816-28.1081, FACJ — — 

2 Pharmacy tethnidans propenly identified and supervised. 84B16-27.410, F.A.CJ 
— : - — 3 Pharmacist on duty wt,en Rx department open. 84816-28.109. F.A.C.I 
— )< — 

4 Propersignsdlsplayed. 465.025(7). F.S.] (1), 64816-28,I081, E.A.CJ 64816-26.1035, 64Bt6-2T.l0O1, FAC.] 
— - — 5 A vestal end printed ler to oounsel is made to the patient or the patents agent 64818-27.820(1), F.A.C.] — 

: — 6 Presalption department has convenient slnlvrunnlng water. 102(1), F.A.CJ 
— 

. 

7 16.28102(4)PAC] : : 6 Proper equipment and ruferonces as required. 64Bt6-26.102(5Xa), F.A.C.] 

9 Medication properly labeled. (465.0255, F.S.] 64816-28.108, ] 
— : to Expired medications removed from the shelves. 64816-28110, F.A.C.J X I CQI Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. 766.101. F.S.] 64816-27.300, F.A.C.] 
— : - — 12 Policy and Procedure lmØernented to pieve'nt the lnaudutent dispensing of controlled substances. 485.022(4), F.S.) - )< — 

IS Presaiptions have the date dispensed and dispensing phannadats. (693.04(I$c) 6, ] (64516-28.140(3)0,), F.A.C.J — 
- 

)< - — 
14 Pharmacy maJntains patient prollie records. 64816-27.800, FAC.] — - — 

15 AJ oont,olled substance presalptJons contain infomiation requIred. 893.04, P.S.] : 
- 

16 Presaiptions for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purthased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 
meet the reitutrements of 456.42(2), F.S.J. 

- 

17 Presaiptions nay not be filled in excees of one year or six months for controls from the date written. 693.04(1)(g), ] 64616-27.211, F.A.C.1 — 
- >( - 

18 Controlled substance inventorytaken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. P.S.] — 
- - — 

i9 0EA222 ordertonuspropeitycornpleled. (893.07, — 
- K - — 

20 Controlled substance rermds and R.x Information In computersysten is retrievable. 2tCFR 1306.221 64616-26.140, F.A.C.] — 
- - — 

21 Conuolled substance records maintained lbr4 years. 465.022(12)(b), P.S.] — 
- )< - — 

22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. 2ICFR 1306.22(bX3)] 164616-28.140(3Rb), F.A.CJ : : - 
23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any Instance of fraudulent lptions within 24 hours or dose of business on next business day of learning of instance. 

Reports indude all required information. 465.015(3), P.S.] 

24 Record of theft or significant loss of all ned substances is being maintained and is being reported to the sheriff within 24 hours of discovery. 893.07(5), P.S.] 465.015, P.S.] 
25 Pharmacy Is reporting to the PDMP wIthin 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. (4) P.S.] 

26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy witolesaler permit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the folbMng month. 
1499.01 21 (14), P.S.] 

27 Registered pharmacist properly presalbing. (64616-27.210, F.A.C.] 

28 Compounding records property maintained. 64816-27.700. FACt 
29 Unit dose records properly maintained. 465.015(1)Q). F.S.] 64616-28.118, FAC.] 
30 Pedigree records retrievable. 64F-12.012(3ga)2., (d), FAC.] 

Note: if establishment is engaged in perenteral/enteral compounding, a separate Inspection form should be completed, 
Remarks: Most current CQI was cornpleted on 01/2012. Most current Inventory was completed on 11/12/2011. The facility buys medication from the following whole sellers: Cardinal 

Health, Quest, Top RX. I have reviewed all that Is applicable to this inspection and have found the facility to be in compliance at this time. Inspector received a copy of a 6 
month dispensing log of control 2 substances (6 months). I have reviewed the inspection with the PS prior to signing. 

I have read and have had this bispoction report and the laws and regulatons concerned rein explained, and do affirm that the inforniatan given heren is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I have received a copy 01 
the Icensee ol Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT William Walker (PDM) 

lnsmunional Nepresentative 
lNVOSOReeised 06,12/02.12/00 PharrmdstStgnature 

FiIe# 15664 

lrisp# 106037 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

FL. US 

01-24-2012 
Date 

ID mi204 



COMWLUNITY PHARMACY ,: 
ooms sear tnt: ) - 107 WViAlOtS — — 

- 465.017 893.39 ANC C&-AP"EP C56, STATUTES 
Noie p,iaoIisrn'srt is araaoe.l ? ofli174--n c ' 71 le sit a asorare on farm b bt 

4X!aEOF S - - — 
I flAT g5 EcTON a A zrt 

DOING BUSINESS AS • EXTENS ON 

STREE AO0RESS STATE 7W — 

E 
I 

I ).: T DATP 

NAME °D'.' DAE 

__________________________ 

VENDOR WHOLESALER PhARMACY :FNflQR JOENSU NUMBER 

L.CENSL NLJ.IEEP 

2 

3 

SATISPA 
1. Rx department hours S days for 40 flours per week. 1081 F 4.0.] 
2. Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supepsised. approval date (64816-27.413. F A.C 
3. Pharmaost on duty when Rx department open. (64816-28 109. F A C. . — 

4. Proper signs displayed. (465 ). F S 64B15-28.109i1 . 81 F.AC l(64816-28.1035F A... 
(64316-27 400f6j 

5. Written and verba: offer to counsel patients. 64616-27 820) i, F A.C.I 
6. Prescription department has convenient sink/running water F.A.C 
7 Prescription department clean safe. 64616-28.132(4). F AC: 
8 Proper equipment and references as recuired (64816-28 102 F ] 
9. Medication properly labeieci (465.0255 F,S 64816-28 108 F 4.0 j(64616-28.1191. F 4.0: 
10. COE Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. (64616-27.300, F A.C (766.101. F.S.] 
11. Prescriptions have the date dispensed arc dispensing pharmacists (893.04(1 id 6. F.S.) (64816-28 140(3) ) 
12. Pharmacy.marntains patient arofile records (64816-27.300, F A CJ 
13 Controlled substance records readily retneveble (893.07 F SI 
14. All controlied substance prescriptions contain ;nformaton required 11) tct. F.S] i( - 

15 Prescriptions may not be tilled in excess of one year Or six months for controls from the date written 19). F.S.J (64B16-28 114. F.A.C.] 
16. Controlled suostance inventory taken on a biennial hosts and available for inspection to:. . 
17. DEA 222 oroer forriis properly completed (893.07(2; F.5 
18 Controlled substance Rx information in computer system is retrievable 21CFR 1306.22) (893.07, F 5) (64616-28.140. F A.C 
19 Controlled substance records mairnained for 2 years 21CFR 1304 04](21CFR 1306.22] 893074l1b). F.5 
20 Certified daily log OR printout maintainec as required by section j2ICFR 1306.22(b)(3fl (64616-28.14ffl3) F ] 
21. Registered pharmacist properly prescribing 64816-27.210. F.A.C.] - 

22 Compounding recoros properly maintained (64616-27 700. F AC ](64516-28 140t4i F A C.] 
23 Unit dose records properly maintained 465 (1 1 F S ]f64B16-28.1 18. F AC] 

Questions with () may be answered /a (nor applicable) 
- Note establisnment is engaged in parenteral'er.ternl compounding, a separate inspection form should os coniplete; 

Remarks /C \ f . 
i• C 

i love nave this igapection repoyarrc We lawn and ooncernes expiainoo and '5 me crc correct lone best ci 0') kr.ocviedge 

/ 
tjurotui'o of r'iiaiiuuiot - ' . .' - 

(.. 
Print its'.' it,' e — It '2 

FILE#_______ 

INSPECTION# 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 
DQH STATE. FL. US 

FI.tlttlLt OEftUtfltE'4T OF\ 

- 

s, Ui. 13 NUI1IUe 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

F DEP ?. 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN # C70 o Tallahassee. FL 32399-3270 

Name ction Number Datc ol ins lion H 
Doing a> 

J e Number Lie nce It 

Streci address 
- Telephone # 

/ 

5 
C i HCLX i lJ C4 

.d 
44ifl r)gc\ 

T'-rH k (Th 
'/ 

C 

(c 
L k'C ( -h (k 

i 

C 

I have read and acknowledge the receipt of this supplemental inspection (eport. and do affirm Ihal the information given is true and correct to the besi of my knowledge. .- 

- -4/ 
nspecto, ratLrwlct $&umber 

B , v n. 

/ 

It ; / ) 

______ 

Dale - 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE - ISU/DOC PROGRAM IHEALTHI 
ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

FL. US/MQA/DDC 

CORPORATE NAME 
BROTHERS PHARMACY AND DISCOUNT. LLC 

INSPECTION NUMBER 
105385 

TYPE OF PER 
2205 

MIT DATE OF INSPECTION 
1/19/2011 

DOING BUSINESS AS FILE NUMBER 
15884 

UCENSE 
23338 

STREET ADDRESS 
1001 5W27 AVE 

TELEPHONE 
305-308-8456 

# EXT# 

CITY 
MIAMI 

COUNTY 
MIAMI-DADE 

STATE/ZIP 

Remarks: 
A re-inspection was completed on /2012010. please refer to manual re—inspection due to tablet issues. 

Page: Ot 

I have read and have had this inspection report and the laws and regulations herein explained, and do Slim, that the information g&en herein is frue and correct to the best of 
my knowledge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT N/A 

01-19-2011 
Date Dnig Agent/Inspector ignature Institutional Representhve 

NV 410 01107 Replaces 07103 

ID 1187 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201117660 

IHAB S. BARSOUM, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: IHAB S. BARSOUM 
14937 BRUCE B DOWNS BLVD 
SUITE 204 
TAMPA, FL 33613 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. Although the Respondent is not required to be present, 
it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan 
Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
bee sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

Executive 
D OF PHARMACY 
Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott Minion: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health - — 

ci all people in Florida through integrated — John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

I 

State Sumeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the NaUon 

TO: 

MEMORAND UM 

Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Michael Lawrence, Jr., Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Determination of Waiver 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Ihab S. Barsoum, P.S. 

DOH Case Number 2011-17660 

DATE: August 12, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Ihab S. Barsoum 
Subject's Address of 14937 Bruce B Downs Blvd, Suite 204 
Record: Tampa, FL 33613 
Enforcement Address: 14937 Bruce B Downs Blvd, Suite 204 

Tampa, FL 33613 
Subject's Additional 17303 Ladera Estates Blvd. 
Addresses: Lutz, FL 33548 

Federal Correctional Institution 
2225 Haley Barbour Parkway 
Yazoo City, MS 39194 

Subject's License No: 30945 Rank: PS 
Licensure File No: 19958 

Initial Licensure Date: 11/8/1995 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Ct 1: 456.072(1)(c), FS (2012) 
Ct 2: 456.072(1)(x), FS (2012) 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: February 28, 2013; Glass & Mullins 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department Of Health/Consumer Services Unit 
Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Motion for Determination of Waiver 
Exhibit A — Administrative Complaint 

Florida Department of Health www.FiorldasHealth.com 
Office ci the General Counsel • Prosecuflon Services Unt 

ITFER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way! Bin 0-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

FACEBOOICFLDeparmientofl-lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — SUite 105 

YCUTUBE: fldoh 
FAX 850/245-4683 



Exhibit B — Certified Mail Receipt 
Exhibit C — Affidavit of Diligent Search 
Exhibit D — Board Affidavit 
Exhibit E — Clerk's Affidavit 

Motion to Assess Costs with 
Exhibit A — Affidavit of Fees & Costs Expended 
Exhibit 1 — Cost Summary 
Exhibit 2 — Itemized Cost 

Probable Cause Memorandum 
Emergency Suspension Order 

Affidavit of Diligent Search 
Certified Mail Receipt 
Administrative Weekly 

Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1-5 

Disciplinary Guidelines: 
COUNT I - 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes 
First : Misdemeanor: $1,000 fine up to $5,000 fine and one year suspension; Felony: 
$3,000 fine and one year probation to Revocation 

COUNT II — 456.072(1)(x). Florida Statutes (2012): 
First : $1,000 fine to $2,500 fine and one (1) year suspension 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: DETERMINATION OF WAIVER 

This is a two-count administrative complaint alleging Respondent violated Section 
456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a 

plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction 
which relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, a licensee's profession; and Section 
456.072(1)(x), Florida Statutes (2012), by failing to report to the board, or the department if 
there is no board, in writing within 30 days after the licensee has been convicted or found 
guilty of, or entered a plea of nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any 
jurisdiction. Convictions, findings, adjudications, and pleas entered into prior to the enactment 
of this paragraph must be reported in writing to the board, or department if there is no board, 
on or before October 1, 1999. 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, , 
. CASE 0 1476W 

IHAB S. BARSOUM, R.Ph., 
Respondent. 

MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF WAIVER AND FOR 
FINAL ORDER BY HEARING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED 

ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through counsel, moves the 

Board of Pharmacy to find that Respondent has waived his/her right to elect 

a method of disposition of the pending Administrative Complaint, to 

determine that no material facts are in dispute, to conduct a hearing not 

involving disputed issues of material fact, and to enter a Final Order. As 

grounds therefore, Petitioner states: 

1. An Administrative Complaint was filed against Respondent on 

February 28, 2013. A copy of said Administrative Complaint is attached 

hereto as Petitioner's Exhibit A. 

2. Copies of the Administrative Complaint, Explanation of Rights 

form, and Election of Rights forms were sent to Respondent, via certified US 

mail delivery, on March 6, 2013 (7196 9008 9111 1491 3912). A signed 



green receipt card was returned. A copy of the certified mail receipt is 

attached as Petitioner's Exhibit B. 

3. Thereafter, the Department requested personal service on 

Respondent, which was completed on JLdy 11, 2013. The affidavfit of 

personal service is attached as Petitioner's Exhibit C. 

4. Respondent has not flied with either the Department of Health or 

the Board of Pharmacy, an Election of Rights form or other responsive 

pleading in this case within the twenty-one (21) day period to dispute the 

allegations contained in the Administrative Complaint. Copies of affidavits 

supporting the same are attached hereto as Petitioner's Exhibits D and E. 

5. Rule 28-106.111(2), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

persons seeking a hearing on an agency 
decision which does or may determine their 
substantial interests shall file a petition for hearing 
with the agency within 21 days of receipt of written 
notice of the decision. 

6. Rule 28.106.111(4), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

• • • any person who received written notice of an 
agency decision and who fails to file a written 
request for a hearing within 21 days waives the 
right to request a hearing on such matters. 



7. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this motion sent to 

his/her address of record, that a copy of the investigative file in this case 

shall be furnished to the Board to establish a prima fade case regarding the 

violations as set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

8. The Department has determined that there are no material facts 

in dispute and has concluded that Respondent has waived his/her right to 

elect the method of , 
9. The Department requests that this Motion and a hearing be 

placed on the agenda for the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board 

of Pharmacy. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board find that 

Respondent has waived his/her right to elect a method of resolution of this 

matter, find that there are no material facts in dispute, hold a hearing not 

involving material issues of disputed fact based on the information contained 

in the investigative file, find that Respondent violated Chapters 456 and 465, 

Florida Statutes, as alleged in the Administrative Complaint, impose ipline 
in accordance with the disciplinary guidelines, and enter a Final Order. 



R p liy submitted, 

Assistant General Counse 
Florida Bar No. 0011265 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-1111 x8199 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email :michaelawrence@doh.state.fLus 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Motion for Determination of Waiver and for Final Order by Hearing Not 

Involving Disputed Issues of Material Fact has been furnished via U.S. mail 

this day of 2013, to Ihab Barsoum, 

FCI #55623-018, 2225 Haley Barbour Parkway, Yazoo City, MS 39194; 

17303 Ladera Estates Blvd., Lutz, FL 33548; 14937 Bruce B. Downs Blvd., 

Suite 204, Tampa, FL 33613. 

V(/L P 
Jr. 

Assistant General Counsel 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

CASE NO. 2011-17660 

IHAB S. BARSOUM, R.Ph., 

RESPONDENT. 

______________________________________I 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph., and In 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner Is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, FlorIda Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material this Administrative ConiplaTht, 

Respondent was a licensed pharmadst within the state of Florida, having 

been issued license number PS 30945. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 14937 Bruce B. Downs 

Boulevard, Suite 204, Tampa, Florida, 33611 

4. Respondents current address is believed to be 17303 Ladera 

Estates Boulevard, Lutz, lorida 

S. On or about August 21, 2012, in the United States District 

Court, Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division, in case number 8:1ICR- 

548±33MAP, Respondent was found guilty by a Jury on six counts: one 

count of conspiracy to knowingly and intentionally dispense and distribute, 

and cause to be dispensed and distributed, quantities of Oxycodone, a 

Schedule I Controlled Substance, not for a legitimate medical purpose and 

not in the usual course of professional practice, a felony, in violation of 21 

U.S.C. § 846; and five counts of knowingly and intentionally acting outside 

the course of professional practice by distributing, and causing to be 

distributed, Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance, a felony, in 

violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1). 

6. Respondent failed to report being found guilty of the cilmes 

referenced in paragraph f(ve (5) to the Board of Pharmacy in writing within 

thirty (30) days of the date he was found guilty on or about August 21, 

2012. 

Departne'it of Health v. lab S. Oarnifll, RMI. 2 

Case Nunter 201147660 



COUNT ONE 

7. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 

through six (6), as if fully set forth herein. 

8. Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob 

contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which 

relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, a licensee's profession 

constitutes grounds for disciplinary action. 

9. Respondent is licensed pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida 

Statutes, and is a health care practitioner as defined in Section 456.001(4), 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

10. On or about August 21, 2012, in the United States District 

Court, Middle District of florida, Tampa Division, in case number - 
Respondent was found guilty by a jury of one or more of the 

following crimes that relate to the practice of, or the ability to practice, 

pharmacy: 

a. One count of conspiracy to knowingly and intentionally 

dispense and distribute, and cause to be dispensed and 

distributed, quantities of Oxycodone, a Schedule II 

bepaitnent & Healthy. ' S. Barnm, R.Pti. - -3 

Case Number 201 -17660 



Controlled Substance, not for a legitimate medical purpose 

and not in the usual course of professional practice, a felony, 

in vlotaUon of U.S.C. § 846; 

b. Five counts of knowingly and intentionafly acting outside the 

course of professional practice by distributing, and causing 

to be distributed, Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled 

Substance, a felony, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1). 

11. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by being convicted or found guilty 

of, or entering a plea of guilty or note contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or 

the ability to practice, a licensee's profession 

COUNT TWO 

12. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 

through six (6), as if fully set forth herein. 

13. Section 456.072(1)(x), Florida Statutes (2012), provIdes that 

falling to report to the board, or the department If there Is no board, in 

writing within thIrty (30) days after the licensee has been convicted or 

found guilty of, or entered a plea of nob contendere to, regardless of 

Deparunent of Health V. lImb 5. Barsourn, tPti. I 
Case Number 2fl11-17560 



adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction, constitutes grounds for disciplinary 

action. 

14, Respondent is licensed pursuant to Chapter 465, Honda 

Statutes, and is a health care practitioner as defined In Section 456.001(4), 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

15. Respondent failed to report being Ibund guflty of the crimes 

referenced In paragraph five (5) to the Board of Pharmacy in writing within 

thirty (30) days of the date he was found guilty on or about August 21, , 
16. Based on the foregoing, Respondent viotated Section 

456.072(1)(x), Florida Statutes (2012), by failing to report to the board in 

writing within thIrty (30) days after the licensee has been convicted or 

found guilty of; or entered a plea of nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order Imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, Issuance of a reprimand, 

placement or the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

Depa,tma,t of Health v. thab S. Darsoum, R.Ph, 

Case Nunt& 2011-17660 



fees billed Or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this T)1 day of 2011 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State ur eon General and Secretary of Health 

• 

MICHAEL G. LAWRENCE, 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fia. Bar No. 0011265 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 

FILED 
4052 BaLd Cypress Way, Bin #C65 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 

CLERK 
Telephone: (850) 2454411, extension 8199 

DATE FEB 2 8 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: mldiael_lawrence@doh. state.fius 

/MGL ': February 28, 2013 
PCP Members: Glass & Mullins 

Department of Health v. Ihab S. Barsoum, FLPII. 6 

Case Number 2011-17660 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing Is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Ida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

Department of Health v. Thab . Barsoun,, R.Pti. 7 
Case t4irter 201 1-12660 

, 



71% 9111 P491 3912 

SENDER: 

I.S. Barsoum 
2011-17660 
ab—StipPk 
Sent 3/6/13 

REFERENCE: 

Ihab S. Barsoum 
17303 Ladera Estates Blvd. 
Lutz, FL 33548 

& by (Pt-ease Print cIeaIM B Date at Do5vary i3 
C. Signature 

0. Is delivery address ceflerent 1mm lIen, 1? 

It enter delivery address beION 
C Yes 

C No 

'., 

Ihab S. Barsouni 
17303 Ladera Estates Blvd. 
Lutz, FL 33548 
Case No. 20 17660 
Stip Pk— Sent 3/6113 

J. I. . II.. II. .. 1... 11. ..l.. .. 11.1. , EXHIBIT 

F 

POSTMARK-OR DATE US Postal Semlce 

Receipt for 
Certified Mair 
No mewva Covnge Pmvlded 
Do Net Ui ft O 

2. Art-ide Number 

I III 
71,56 9006 9111 1491 

3. SeMce Type CERTIFIED MAIL'" 

4. RestrIcted Delivery? Efla ) 
I. Artide Addressed to: 

o Agent 
CMdrasaee 

PS Form 3811. January 



Rick Scott Minion: 
Governor To protect. promote & improve the health 

of all people in Floñda throu9h integrated 
John H. Armstrong, 1 FACS state, ecunty & community efforts. 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naflon 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DIUGENT SEARCH 

DeDartment of Health 
Petitioner 

vs 

Ihab 5. Barsoum. RPh. 
Respondent 

Case No. 2011-17660 C— 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 

1) Afflant isa/an by 4c State of 425 

2) That on (date) i . Afflant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve 
_X__Administrative'Cotnplaint and related papers; 

_____Order 

compelling examination(s); 

_____Subpoena(s); _____Final 

order; 

_____Notice 

to cease and desist; _XESO/ERO and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

at 

_______Affiant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent 
provided to me by the DOH Prosecution Services Unit; (b) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent 
was known to frequent; (d) Division of Drivers Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); any others: 

Fiorida Departntont of Heaith 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecuton Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Sufte 105 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 8501245-4683 

t 
It 

/ 

HEALTH 

I I 

State of County of 

Before me, personally appeared Affiant, whose identity is known to me by 
type) and who, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to or affirmed before me this 

__________day 

of 

______________ 

Signature of Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: '1}lOMJi /!j Jo/6 

ID 

2013. 

Printed Name of Notary 

4 
EXHIBIT 



Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 

Affidavit of 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State S4Jlgeon General & Secretary 

hereby certify in my official capacity as 

custodian for the Board's licensure files that the Board of Pharmacy as of 

J 
C,. ,has no evidence of an Election of RigJits form or other 

responsive pleading requesting a hearing prior to any agency action regarding Ihab . 
Barsoum, R.Ph.; 201 1-1 , 
rights. 

which would affect the Subject's substantial interests or 

Custodian Records 
Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Before me, personally appeared whose identity is 

known to me personally and who, under, oath, acknowledges that his/her signature 

appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 
) L day of 

13. 

Notary Public 
My commission expires: 

Florida Departmont of Health 
Office of the General Counsel • Proseailion SeMces Una 

4052 Bald Cypress Way! Bin C-65 • Tallahassee. FL 32399-1701 

PHONE: .4444 • FAX 8501245-4883 

EXHIBIT 
FACE 

Mission: 
To protect & improve the health 
of all people in Florida integrated 

slate, county & community efforts. 

U \-b. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

HaMt'E ROBISON 

EXPIRES: 17.2015 



Mission: 
To protect, promote 8 improve the health 

of all people in Ftiida through integrated 

state, county & community efforis. 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Swetary 

AFFIDAVIT 

\ 

Office, in my official 

records, that the Department Clerk's 

or other responsive pleading, which 

regarding Ihab S. Barsoum. : 
substantial interests or rights. 

Custodian of Record 
Department Clerk's Office 

Before me, personally appeared 

known to me personally and who, under oath, acknowledges 

appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 

whose identity is 

that his/her signature 

,20l3. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

BARTON NOtApy Fue.uc -STATE 

ea4ozD 

Fiorida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel- Selvices Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin Tallahassee. Fl. 32399-1701 FAC 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 . FAX 850(245-4683 

Deputy Clerk for the Department Clerk's 

capacity as custodian for the Department Clerk's 

Office has not received an Election of Rights form 

requests a hearing prior to any Department action 

17660. which would affect the Respondent's 

I 



4 /7a2 

PRACTITIONER 
LEGAL 7/ao(tS 

2013 AUG —2 PH 12:50 

4444 4 

4 
'- 

at floe 07 

. - - C 



Rick Scott 
Mission: I I 

Governor 
Toprotect. prornote&irnprovethehealth I - — 

— I of all people in through integrated I 

state, 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS l I 

State Surgeon General & Secretaiy 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 

August 20, 2013 

Ihab S. Barsoum 
17303 Ladera Estates Blvd. 
Lutz, FL 33546 

Ihab S. Barsoum 
FCI #55623-018 
2225 Haley Barbour Parkway 
Yazoo, City, MS 39194 

Re: Case Name: Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph. 
Case Number: 2011-1 7660 

Dear Mr. Barsoum: 

I am in receipt of your letterdated July 20, 2013. I contacted Mark 'Brien, Esq., and he indicated he 
is only representing you regarding your criminal appeal and is not representing you in this matter. 

Although you are appealing your criminal conviction, the completion of relevant appellate remedies 
does not preclude the Department from prosecuting your pharmacy license and submitting your case 
to the Board of Pharmacy for discipline. In Rife v. Dep't of Prof'l , 638 So. 2d 542, 543 (Fla. 2d 
DCA 1994), the court allowed discipline based on action against appellants license in another state 
even though appellate proceedings were still pending. 

You were served with an administrative complaint via personal service on June 11, 2013. You failed to 
dispute the allegations of fact contained within the administrative complaint and failed to submit a 
response within twenty-one days of service of the administrative complaint, so your case will be heard 
by the Board of Pharmacy as a Motion for Determination of Waiver and for Final Order by Hearing Not 
Involving Disputed Issues of Material Fact. You will receive notice of the meeting at a future time. 

u rs, 

Michael . Lawrence, J 

Assistant General Cou el 

MGL 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel' ProsecuUon Services LJna 

TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 

FACEBOOK-FLDepartmentofHealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row — Suite 105 

YOUTIJBE: fldoh 
PHONE:850/245-4444' FAX 850/245-4683 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2011-17660 

IHAB S. BARSOUM, R.PH., 
Respondent. 

MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 
WiTH SECTION ) 

COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry 

of a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the 

investigation and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner 

states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of 

Pharmacy will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary 

action and will enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or 
after July 1, 2001, pursuant to this section or 







DATED this th day of August, 2013. 

Michael G. L 

Assistant General Counsefi 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar #0011265 
(850) 245-4444 x8199 Telephone 
(850) 245-4683 Fax 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Motion to Assess Costs has been provided by U.S. Mail this 
th day of August, 2013, to Ihab S. Barsoum, FCI #55623-018, 2225 

Haley Barbour Parkway, Yazoo City, MS 39194; Ihab S. Barsoum, 

17303 Ladera Estates Blvd., Lutz, FL 33548; Ihab S. Barsoum, 14937 

Bruce B. Downs Blvd., Suite 204, Tam a, L 33613. H Michae G. wrencj Jr. 
Assistant General Counsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors dentists nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275, 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 2011-17660 (Department of Health v. IHAB S. 
BARSOUM) are ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY-NINE 
DOLLARS AND FORTY-EIGHT CENTS ($1,749.48). 

6) The costs for DOH case number(s) 2011-1 7660 (Department of Health 
v. IHAB S. BARSOUM) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost Summary 
Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case number(s) 2011- 
17660 (Department of Health v. IHAB S. BARSOUM) are detailed in 
Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and 
receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 
keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 

of 2 



and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this______ day of 

_____________, 

2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is personally known to me. 

ure 
£ 

Name of Notary PrintedC 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 



Compilaint Cost 
Complirint Number: 201117660 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: BARSOUM, THAB S 

T 
SDETL.Asp 8/13/2013 

IL 
***** Cost to Date ***** 

Hours Costs 
Complaint: IP l 

$1,026.71 
6.2&I $658.60 

0.05 

[ [ 

ISub Total: 23.651 $1,749.48j 
Expenses to Date: so.ooj 
Prior Amount: 

I 
so.ooj 

Total Costs to Date: ! 



D
M

si
on

oI
 

**
* 

C
O

N
F

ID
E

 N
 T

I A
L

 *
**

 
Ic

al
 Qu

al
ily

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

IS
V

4 
Ite

m
iz

ed
 C

os
t 

by
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

11
17

66
0 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/1
3/

20
13

 
Pa

ge
 I

 
of

 3 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

IC
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 U

N
IT

 

H
A

Il 
0.

10
 

$5
7.

62
 

$5
.7

6 
11

/1
5/

20
11

 
I 

R
O

U
T

E
N

E
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

D
U

T
IE

S
 

H
C

27
 

0.
05

 
$3

2.
13

 
$1

.6
1 

02
/1

4/
20

13
 

12
5 

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

0.
15

 
57

.3
7 

IC
O

N
S

U
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

n 
0.

70
 

$5
7.

62
 

$4
0.

33
 

11
/0

1/
20

11
 

78
 

IE
W

A
N

D
A

N
A

LY
S

IS
O

F
C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
O

5 
-3

0 
$5

4.
90

 
$1

6.
47

 
02

/0
6/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

S
E

 F
IL

E
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

1.
00

 
$5

6.
80

 

IIN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

1I
23

 
0.

50
 

$6
1.

19
 

$3
0.

60
 

01
/3

1/
20

12
 

7 
P

R
E

LI
M

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

1l
41

 
1.

20
 

$6
1.

19
 

$7
3.

43
 

12
01

2 
7 

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
T

ll4
l 

0.
60

 
$6

1.
19

 
$3

6.
71

 
05

/1
7/

20
12

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

11
12

3 
-0

0 
$6

1.
19

 
$6

1.
19

 
07

/1
0/

20
12

 
7 

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
11

23
 

.5
0 

$6
1.

19
 

$9
1.

79
 

09
/2

7/
20

12
 

7 
P

R
E

LI
M

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

12
3 

1.
00

 
$6

1.
19

 
$6

1.
19

 
11

/2
1/

20
12

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
T

I 
12

3 
2.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
27

.9
6 

11
/2

9/
20

12
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

1I
23

 
1.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
3.

98
 

11
/2

9/
20

12
 

58
 

T
R

A
V

E
L 

T
IM

E
 

12
3 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
12

/1
2/

20
 1

2 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

11
12

3 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

01
/1

0/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
12

3 
2.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
27

.9
6 

02
/0

6/
20

13
 

58
 

T
R

A
V

E
LT

IM
E

 
T

II2
3 

1.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

3.
98

 
02

/0
6/

20
13

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

12
3 

1.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
59

5.
97

 
02

/0
6/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

IT
 

12
3 

1.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

3.
98

 
02

/1
4/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

LI
N

V
E

S
T

JG
A

T
IO

N
 

12
3 

1.
60

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

02
.3

7 
06

/2
8/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

LI
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- 

F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 U

S
E

 O
N

L
Y

 -
- 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 



D
iv

ñi
on

 o
f 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ut
an

ce
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
11

17
66

0 
R

ep
or

t 
D

at
e 

08
/1

3/
20

13
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

16
.3

0 
$1

,0
26

.7
1 

Ll
ko

sE
C

u 
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

H
L

L
83

13
 

0.
10

 
$1

02
.4

1 
$1

0.
24

 
11

/0
2/

20
11

 
78

 
IN

IT
IA

L
 R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

SI
S 

O
F 

C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

H
L

L
83

B
 

0.
10

 
$1

02
.4

1 
$1

0.
24

 
11

/0
2/

20
11

 
11

5 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T

 W
IT

H
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
O

R
S 

13
 

0.
60

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$6

3.
81

 
02

/0
7/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 
R

B
 

0.
50

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$5

3.
18

 
02

/0
7/

20
13

 
81

 
E

SO
/E

R
O

 
I-

IL
L

96
B

 
0.

40
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$4
2.

54
 

02
/1

4/
20

13
 

78
 

FN
IT

IA
L

R
E

V
IE

W
A

N
D

A
N

A
L

Y
SI

SO
FC

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 
H

L
L

96
B

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

02
/1

4/
20

13
 

64
 

IO
N

B
O

A
R

D
O

FF
IC

E
,D

E
PT

ST
A

FF
O

R
A

T
T

Y
G

E
N

O
FE

: 
H

L
L

96
B

 
1.

00
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
06

.3
5 

02
/1

4/
20

13
 

28
 

PR
E

PA
R

E
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
E

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 
H

L
L

96
B

 
0.

50
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$5
3.

18
 

02
/1

5/
20

13
 

28
 

PR
E

PA
R

E
O

R
R

E
V

IS
E

A
D

M
L

N
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

E
IL

L
96

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
02

/1
9/

20
13

 
64

 
L

E
G

A
L

 A
D

V
IC

E
/D

IS
C

U
SS

IO
N

 -
 
B

O
A

R
D

 O
FF

IC
E

,D
E

PT
 S

T
A

FF
 O

R
 A

T
T

Y
 G

E
N

 O
FF

 
13

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

02
/1

9/
20

13
 

60
 

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S 

8 
0.

40
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$4
2.

54
 

02
/1

9/
20

13
 

28
 

H
L

L
38

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
02

/2
5/

20
13

 
89

 
PR

O
B

A
B

L
E

 C
A

U
SE

 P
R

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

SB
 

0.
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

0.
64

 
02

/2
8/

20
13

 
68

 
SI

G
N

IN
G

 C
L

O
SI

N
G

 O
R

D
E

R
S,

 A
D

M
iN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

S 
A

N
D

 R
E

A
SO

N
A

B
 

H
L

L
38

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
03

/0
6/

20
13

 
79

 
ST

IP
U

L
A

T
IO

N
 

I-
IL

L
38

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
03

/1
1/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 
FI

L
L

36
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

03
/2

5/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
SE

 F
IL

E
 

13
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
07

/0
1/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

C
A

SE
FI

L
E

 
H

L
L

38
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

08
/0

2/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
SE

 F
IL

E
 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

6.
20

 
$6

58
.6

0 

Fl
or

id
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
SE

 O
N

L
Y

 -
- 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 



**
*C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

T
IA

L
**

* 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 C

os
t 

by
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

11
17

66
0 

Fl
or

id
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
--

 
ite

m
iz

ed
oo

st
 

D
iv

is
io

n 
ci

 
M

ad
ic

Q
l Q

ua
lit

y 
&

ss
ul

an
ce

 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/1
3/

20
13

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

S
 of 3 



ol
 

C
O

N
 F

 I
 D

E
N

T
 IA

 L
 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
sw

ra
nc

e 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

f\
/t 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

08
/1

3/
20

 1
3 

Pa
ge

 1
 
of

 I 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 L
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
ite

m
iz

ed
ex

pe
ns

e 



MEMORANDUM OF FINDING OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROMg Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy E l v. Ihab S. Barsoum, RPh. 
DOH Case Number 2011-17660 

MEMBERS: Debra B. Glass, BPharm, and DeAnn Mullihs, BPharm 

DATE OF PCP: February 28, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A2(JS) 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above data Having reviewed 
the complete investigative report, recommendations of the Department, and any 
information submitted by the Subject; and being otherwise fully advised in the 
premises, the panel finds that: 

X Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 456.072(1)(x), Florida Statutes (2012) 

____ 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

____ 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

____ 

Case requires expert review 

____ 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

____ 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

____ 

Other 

•air, Probable Cause Panel 
Board of Pharmacy 

Date 



Final Order No. 

PILED DATEFEB 1 4 ) 
Health 

STATE OF FLORIDA By:___________ 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH c Agency C 1. 

hi Re: Emergency Suspension of the license of 
Ihab S. Barsoumq 
License No. PS 30945 
Case Number: 2011-17660 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF LICENSE 

John I. Armstrong, MD, FACS, State Surgeon General and Secretary 

of Health, ORDERS the emergency suspension of the license of Ihab S. 

Barsoum, R.Ph., to practice as a pharmacist in the State of Florida. Mr. 

Barsoum holds license number PS 30945. His address of record is 14937 

Bruce B. Downs Boulevard, Suite 204, Tampa, Florida, 33613. Mr. 

Barsoum's current address is believed to be 17303 Ladera Estates 

Boulevard, Lifl, Florida 33548. The following Findings of Fact and 

Conclusions of Law support the emergency suspension of Mr. Barsoum's 

license to practice as a pharmacist. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health (Department) is the state agency 

charged with regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Chapters 20, 

456, and 465, Florida Statutes (2012). Section 456.074(1), Florida 

Statutes (2012), authorizes the Department to summarily suspend Mr. 



In Re: Ern&pertcy Stzpension of the License of 
Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph. 

No.: PS 30945 
201147660 

Barsoum's license to practice as a pharmacist. 

2. At all times material to this Order, Mr. Barsoum was hcensed to 

pracUce as a pharmacist the State of Rorfida pwsuant to Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

3. On or about August 21, 2012, in the United States District 

Court, Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division, in case number 8:11-CR- 

548-T-33MAP, Respondent was found guilty by a jury on six counts: one 

count of conspiracy to knowingly and intentionally dispense and distribute, 

and cause to be dispensed and distributed, quantities of Oxycodone, a 

Schedule II Controlled Substance, not for a legitimate medical purpose and 

not in the usual course of professional practice, a felony, in violation of 21 

U.S.C. § 846; and five counts of knowingly and intentionally acting outside 

the course of professional practice by distributing, and causing to be 

distributed, Oxycodone, a Schedule H Controlled Substance, a felony, in 

violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1). 

4. Section 456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that the 

department shall issue an emergency order suspending the license of any 

person licensed under chapter 465, Florida Statutes, who is convicted or 

oocM 



In Rt Emergency of of 
Ihab S. R.Ph. 
ticerseNo.: P530945 
Case Ft.: 2011-17660 

found guilty, regardless of adjudication, of a felony under 21 U.S.C. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General 

condudes as follows: 

1. The State Surgeon General has jurisdiction over this matter 

pursuant to Sections 20.43 and 456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012), and 

Chapter 465, Florida Statutes (2012), as set fbrth above. 

2. The Department is mandated to summarily suspend Mr. 

Barsoum's license to practice as a pharmacist in accordance with Section 

456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012). 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Section 456.074(1), Florida Statutes 

(2012), it is ORDERED ThAT: 

1. The license of Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph., license number 30945, 

is immediately suspended. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal suspension or discipline of the 

license of Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph., to practice as a pharmacist will be 

promptly instituted and acted upon in compliance with Section 120.569, 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

- 



In Re: Emergency ot the License of 
Ihab S. Barsoum. R.Ph. 
License No.: 
Case No.: 2011-17660 

DONE and ORDERED this I è day of February, 2013. 

Jo . Armstrong, MD Cs 
St Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

PREPARED BY: 
Michael G. Lawrence, Jr. 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Florida Bar Number 0011265 
(850) 245 - 4444 Telephone 
(850) 245 - 4683 Facsimile 

QO(p 



In Re: Emergency of the License of 
limb S. Barsoum, R.Ph. 
Ucense No.: PS 30945 
Case No.: 2011-17660 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO 3UDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Section 120.68, Florida Statutes, this Order is ly 
reviewable. Review proceedings are governed by the lorida Rules of 

Appellate Procedure. Proceedings are commenced by filing a Petition for 

Review, in accordance with Florida Rule of Appeilate Procedure 9.100, with 

the District Court of Appeal, accompanied by a ing fee prescribed by law, 

and a copy of the petition with the Agency Clerk of the Department within 

30 days of the date this Order is filed. 

5 I 



Mission: 
To protect promote & hnprove the health 
of all people in Flohda through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon & Secretary 

Vision: To be the I1eaithiest State in the Nation 

AFFIDAViT OF SERVICE OR DIUGENT SEARCH 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 

) 

1) Afflant isa/an by State of 17Ck5 

2) That on (date) . Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve 
_X__Administrative'Co6iplaint and related papers; 

_____Order 

compelling examination(s); 

_____Subpoena(s); _____Final 

order; 

_____Notice 

to cease and desist; _X_ESO/ERO and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

_______Affiant 

mad e nal servi on R s dent or on some perso over the a e f S residing at 
(address) (date)___________ 

_______Afflant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent 
provided to me by the DOll Prosecution Services Unit; (b) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent 
was known to frequent; (d) Division of Drivers Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); pny others: 

__________ 

Affi4nt Signature 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel- Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Taliahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row— te 105 
PHONE: 850/245-444.4 FAX 850/245-4683 

A 
\ 

HEALTH 

Deoartment of Health 
Petitioner 

vs 

Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph. 
Respondent 

Case No. 2011-17660 

) 

State of 3 County of OO 
/ 

Before me, personally appeared Affiant, whose identity is known to me by .Jthsj 
type) and who, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to or affirmed before me this / day of 

________________ 

- 2013. 

ID , £ 
Signature of Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 1 /1 

,, 
o20/&J 

Printed Name of Notary Public 

1' 
EXHIBIT 



7196 9121 

It 
Ihab S. Barsoum, RPh 
14937 Bruce B Downs 
Blvd, Suite 204 
Tampa, FL 33613 

ESO: 11-17660 2/18/13 
SENDER: 

REFERENCE: 

PS Form 3800, January 2005 

____________________ 

RETURN Postage 

___________________ 

Certified Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 

Restricted Delivery 

______________________ 

lbtai Postage & Fees 

___________________ 

US Petal POSTMARK OR DATE 

Receipt for 
Certified Mair 
No insurance Coverage Provided 
Do Not Use t& lnternaflonei Mail 



1 
D

E
PA

R
T

M
E

N
T

 O
F 

71
.9

6 
90

C
8 

91
11

. 
41

?]
. 

65
4A

 

a o 

IS
(W

V
F

S
 

\ 00
04

37
1g

m
 

F
E

B
19

 
20

13
 

IR
G

O
D

E
 3

23
01

 

iti
on

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
U

ni
t 

ild
 C

yp
re

ss
 W

ay
, 

B
in

 #
C

65
 

;s
ee

, 
F

lo
rid

a 
32

39
9-

32
65

 

¼
 

Ih
ab

S
.B

ar
so

um
,It

P
h.

 

R
E

T
L

'R
N

 
'J

N
A

.B
L

E
 

U
N

A
B

L
E

 
R

E
T

U
R

N
 

T
O

 
SE

N
D

E
R

 
T

O
 

T
O

 
FO

R
W

A
R

D
 

T
J 

SE
N

D
E

R
 

' 
I 
Ilu

iII
iIi

fli
;i 

it 
, 

,i,
uI

iu
IIJ

iij
 on

 

0 C
, 

C
) ) 

14
93

7 
B

ru
ce

 B
. 

D
ow

ns
 B

lv
d.

, S
ui

te
 2

04
 

T
am

pa
, F

L
 3

36
13

 

nE
 
-l

w
 

[ 
02

/2
8/

13
 



Pope, Berita 

From: Pope, Berita 
Sent: Monday, February 18, 2013 3:09 PM 
To: zzzz Feedback, MQA_PSU_Operations 
Subject: ESO FAW Barsoum 

Attachments: ESO FAW Barsoum.doc 

ESO FAW 
(51 KB 

Regulatory Supervisor! Consultant 
Emergency Action Unit 
Department of Health, Prosecution Services 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Tele.: 850-245-1111 ext 8196 
Fax: 850-245-4662 
Berita_Pope©doh.state.fl.us 
www.doh.state.fl.us/mpa 

Mission: Promote, protect and improve the health of all people in Florida. 
Vision: A healthier future for the people of Florida. 

Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from state officials regarding state 
business are public records available to the public and media upon request. Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to 
public disclosure. 

There have been changes to the license renewal process. Please visit www.CEAtRenewal.com to learn more. 

Plecse consider the environment before printing this e-mail. 

1 



MEMORANDUM 

'H TO Florida Administrative Weekly, Liz Cloud 
U u L 

El E4L1"Fi FROM: Berita Pope, Regulatory Supervisor/Consultant 

RE: Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph., License # Ps 30945 (FAW #12663367) 
Florida Health 

CASE NO: 2011-17660 

of all people 

inFloridathrnugh DATE: February 18, 2013 
Integrated stete, county 
&communrtyefforts. Attached please find notice of the issuance of an Emergency Suspension Order for notice in 

the next issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. 

Rick ScotQ 
Governor On February 14, 2013, the State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension 

Order with regard to the license of Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph., License #P530945. This 

Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of 
an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to 
Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6) Floridwstatutes (2011). The State Surgeon General 
determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was 
no other method available to adequately protect the public. 

Department of Health 
Jifice of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1701 

PHONE: 85012454444 

FAX 850/245-4662 

.com 

HealthyFLA 

FACESOOK FLDepartmenthfHeathi Idoh 



February 18 2013 

HEALTH 
lhab S. Barsoum, R.Ph. 

Florida Health MIssion: 14937 Bruce B. Downs Blvd. Suite 204 
Tampa, FL 33613 

& improve the health 

of all people 
in Florida through 

Case Number: 2011-17660 
& community efforts. 

Dear Ihab Rarsoum: 

Rick 

lohn H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Surgeon l & 

of Emergency Suspension of License. 

General Counsel at (850) 245-4444. 

Sincerely, 

Regulatory ! Consultant 
Prosecution Services Unit 

/b p 

'lodda Department of Health Enclosure 

)ffice of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Wa)ç Bin C-65 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1101 

PHONE: 8501245-4444 

FAX 8501245-4662 

TWITTER: HeaIthyFLA 

FACEBOOK FLDepartmentofHealth 

YOUTUBE fldoh 

Certified Article Number 
7196 1Q08 9111 4171 6S48 

SENDERS RECORD 

RE: Department of Health vs. Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph 

Enclosed please find an Order of Emergency Suspension of License filed February 14, 2013, 
against your license topractice as a registered pharmacist in the State of Florida. You should 
immediately cease the practice as a registered pharmacist according to the enclosed Order 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact Michael Lawrence, Jr., Assistant 



** Transmit Conf.. Report ** 
P.1 Feb 182013 05:2Opm 

Fax/Phone Number Mode Start Time Page Result Note 

99216847 Normal 18:05:2Opm 0'31" 1 * 0 K 

::g, iv - 

- - 

rgur!u.dt Febniary 12, 2013 

The Honorable Robert S Cohen 
Chief Administrative law Judge 

Florida Health Migalait Division of Administrative Hearings 
1230 Apalachee Parkway 

of ailpeople Tallahassee, FL 32301 
infbidathmogb 

RE: Department of Health vs. Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph 

Case Number: 2011-17660 

DearJudgeCohert: 

This letter is to advise you that Department has issued an Emergency Suspension Ord$r 
concerning the license of hab S. Rarseum, R,Ph. to practice as a registered pharmacist in the 
State of Florida. An Administrative Complaint has not been issued in the above case. 
Therefore, this is not a request for a formal hearing, 

This letter is sent to advise you of the action taken by the Department and to advise you df 
the possibility that the respondent may request an expedited hearing. The Department iaf I 
keep you advised of any developments. If you need additional information, please contact 
Michael lawrence, Jr., Msistant General Counsel at (850) 245-4444. 

/bp 

Sincerely, 

9oflda Devartment of 
)ffice of the General Co'aisd 
Prosecutto,, Services 

___ 

Bill CIS Berita Pope 
Tallo,assee,Hytta Regulatory Supervisor / Consultant 

. - 

Prosecution Services Unit 

vNNi&ltSieaftKa,m fl 



H EALTH 
Florida Health 

To promote 

of all people 

In Florida through 
Integmted state, county 

& community efforts. 

RIck Scott 
Governor 

lohn H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Surgeon General & Secretaty 

:lortda Department of Health 
)fflce of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services UnIt 
4052 Bald Cypress WaM Bin 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1701 

PHONE: 8501245-4444 

85012454662 

HesithyPLA 

FACEBOOK FLDepartmentofHealth 

YOIJTUBE fldoh 

February 18, 2013 

The Honorable Robert S. Cohen 
Chief Administrative Law Judge 
Division of Administrative Hearings 
1230 Apalachee Parkway 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

RE: Department of Health vs. Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph 

Case Number: 2011-17660 

Dear Judge Cohen: 

This letter is to advise you that the Department has issued an Emergency Suspension Order 
concerning the license of Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph. to practice as a registered pharmacist in the 
State of Florida. An Administrative Complaint has not been issued in the above case. 
Therefore, this is not a request for a formal hearing. 

This letter is sent to advise you of the action taken by the Department and to advise you of 
the possibility that the respondent may request an expedited hearing. The Department shall 
keep you advised of any developments. If you need additional information, please contact 
Michael Lawrence, Jr., Assistant General Counsel at (850) 245-4444. 

/bp 

Sincerely, 

Berita Pope 

Regulatory Supervisor / Consultant 
Pràsecution Services Unit 



nanu 11-1 rage i or i 

Apellaniz, Melba 

From: Apellania, Melba 

Sent Thursday February 14,2013 12:15 PM 

To: DL MQA mv Serv Piiority Mail Area6 (TI) Tampa 

Subject: Hand Service ESO 11-1 7660/Barsoum 

Attachments: Supp.Req.11-17660.Barsoum.2.14.13..doc; DOH 13-0243 ESO 201117660-1 .PDF 
Good Afternoon, 

Attached please find a request to hand service ESO for case 2011-17660, Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph. 

<<..,,> 'cc...>> 

Thanks, 

Ai&4wL. Apelldn6g< RSJI 
Assistant to: Daniel Hernandez, DGC 
Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4444 ext. 8223 
Mission: To protect, promote, and improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, county, & community efforts. 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Values: ICARE 

I innovation: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely. 
C collaboration: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems. 
A accountability: We perform with integrity & respect. 
R responsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & engaging our partners. 
E excellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & continuous performance improvement. 
Purpose: To protect the public through health care licensure, enforcement and information. 
Focus: To be the nation's loader in quality health care regulation. 

Please note: 
Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from state officials regarding-state business are public records available 
to the public and media upon request. Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure, 

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail. 

2/14/20 13 



FLORIDA DEPARrMENT OF 

HEALT 
PSU REQUEST FORM 

Case Number 2011-17660 
Subject Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph. 
Requested Completion Date: ASAP 

*The following additional information is needed for each service request 

Last Known Address: 17303 Laden Estates Blvd., Lutz, Florida 33548; Last Known Name & Phone Number lhab S. 
Barsoum, R.Ph.; Unknown; Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl Nofl; If Yes, When? 
Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service request is being sent? 
YES No Z NOTE All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate field office. 

YES, please send a copy of the original Investigative Report without . 
INV FORM 376, Revised I / 12. 10/Il, 6/10, 06/09, 4/09, 11/08 Created 4/05 

FROM: Melba L Apellaniz, RSII for 
Michael Lawrence, Jr., Esq. 

TO: ISU Babette Agett 

Date: 13 TO: CSU 

Phone #: (850) 245-4640 Ext. 8223 CC: Victor R. Troupe 

Board: Pharmacy 
HL Code:hlI46a Status: 90 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Z Process Service* (Activity Code I 60) 

E Additional Information Requested (Activity Code I 45) 

3 Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code I SO) 

Details: Please hand serve attached ESO/ERO. Thanks. 

(ISU/CSU) RESPONSE: 
I] Process Service Completed (Activity Code 16 I) 3 Process Service NOT Completed (Activity Code I 62) 

3 Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code I 56) 

3 Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 
Email to: 
Pensacola Tallahassee Alachua Jacksonville St. Pete Tampa Orlando Ft. Myers West Palm Ft. Lauderdale Miami 





In Re: Ernegency Suspflon of the License Qf 
Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Pti. 
LicaiseNo.: PS 30945 

2011-17660 

Barsoum's license to practice as a pharmacist. 

2. At all times material to this Order, Mr. Barsoum was licensed to 

practice as a pharmacist im the State of Floilda pursuant to Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

3. On or about August 21, 2012, in the United States District 

Court, Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division, in case number cR- 
548-T-33MAP, Respondent was found guilty by a jury on six counts one 

count of conspiracy to knowingly and intentionally dispense and distribute, 

and cause to be dispensed and distributed, quantities of Oxycodone, a 

Schedule H Controlled Substance, not for a legitimate medical purpose and 

not in the usual course of professional practice, a felony, in violation of 21 

U.S.C. § 846; and five counts of knowingly and intentionally acting outside 

the course of professional practice by distributing, and causing to be 

distrIbuted, Oxycodone, a Schedule I Controlled Substance, a felony, In 

violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1). 

4. Section 456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that the 

department shall issue an emergency order suspending the license of any 

person licensed under chapter 465, Florida Statutes, who is convicted or 



In Re: Elnegency of the Ucense of 
Ibab S. Batsoum, R.Pn. 
Uceitse No.: PS X945 
case No.: 2011-17660 

found guilty, regardless of adjudication, of a felony under 21 U.S.C. 

801-970. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General 

condudes as follows: 

1. The State Surgeon General has jurisdiction over this matter 

pursuant to Sections 20.43 and 456.074(1), FlorIda Statutes (2012), and 

Chapter 465, Florida Statutes (2012), as set forth above. 

2. The Department is mandated to summarily suspend Mr. 

Barsoum's license to practice as a pharmacist in accordance with Section 

456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012). 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Secti on 456.074(1), Florida Statutes 

(2012), it is ORDERED THAT: 

1. The license of Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph., license number 30945, 

Is immediately suspended. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal suspension or discipline of the 

license of Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph., to practice as a pharmacist will be 

promptly instituted and acted upon in compliance with Section 120.569, 

Florida Statutes (2012). 



In Re: Emergency S4zpension of the License of 
imb S. Batoum, R.PPI. 

No.: PS 30945 
2011-17560 

DONE and ORDERED this 1 day of February, 2013. 

A. Armstrong, 
Stfr'Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

PREPARED BY: 
Michael G. Lawrence, Jr. 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Florida Bar Number 0011265 
(850) 245 - till Telephone 
(850) 245 - 4683 Facsimile 



In Re: Emergency of the IJcense of 
Ihab S. Barsoum, R.Ph. 

No.: PS 30945 
Case No.: 2011-17660 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Section 120.68, Florida Statutes, this Order is judicially , Review proceedings are governed by the Flchda Rules of 

Appellate Procedure. Proceedings are commenced by filing a Petition for 

Review, in accordance with Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure with 

the District Court of Appeal, accompanied by a filing fee prescribed by law, 

and a copy of the petition with the Agency Clerk of the Department within 

30 days of the date this Order is filed. 

5 



STATEOF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Area VI Tampa Date of Case: 11-20-12 Case Number: 2011-17660 
Subject: IHAB & BARSOUM, R.PH. Source: Department Of Health I Consumer 
17303 Ladera Estates Boulevard Services Unit 
Lutz, Florida 33548* 
Telephone: Unknown 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
Ps 30945 Pharmacist Pharmacy 02-07-13 
Period of Investigation: 11-21-13 through 02-07-13 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: F.S. 465.016(1)(e)(f)(i)(r)(s), F.S. 499-893, U.S.C. ss. 301-392, or 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 et seq; 
(e) Violating chapter 499; 21 S.C. 55. 301-392, known as the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act; 21 
U.S.C. ss. 821 et seq., known as the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act; or chapter 
893... (f) Having been convicted or found guilty, regardless of adjudication,... (i) Compounding, 
dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, including any controlled substance, other than in the course of the 
professional practice of pharmacy... (r) Violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules 
adopted pursuant thereto... (s) Dispensing any medicinal drug based upon a communication that purports to 
be a prescription... 

Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a Case Summary, Exhibit #1, based upon complaint 
from Department Of Health / Consumer Services Unit. On 10-28-11, a press release from Sunshine State 
News reported BARSOUM (PS 30945) was charged with conspiracy to distribute prescription such as 
Oxycodone. Court documents from the U.S. District Court Tampa provided by ISU state that BARSOUM pled 
guilty on August 21, 2012 to 6 counts of dispensing Oxycodone not for a legitimate medical purpose and not in 
the usual course of professional practice. 

BARSOUM was notified of the investigation by letter dated 11-21-13 (Exhibit #2) at the address of record 
and was provided a copy of the Case Summary and original documents that initiated the complaint. 

A check of DOH computer licensure records revealed BARSOUM is currently licensed as a pharmacist. 

The patient notification letter was not sent since there was no direct patient involvement. 

BARSOUM is not represented by an attorney. 

BARSOUM has not responded to the allegations, however on 02-06-13, Investigator TROUPE met with 
BARSOUM and requested he sign a Voluntary Relinquishment. BARSOUM declined to sign Voluntary 
Relinquishment. 

*New address given to TROUPE by BARSOUM. 

Related Case(s): 

Investigator/Date: 02-07-13 ('\f , Approved By/Date: —o1 
Victor R. Troupe 1 Babette S. Agett, 11—115 
Medical Malpractice Investigator, Tl-123 Invethigation Supervisor 

Distribution: HQ/ISU 
1 

1 

OOHJMQA 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REI-'jRT CASE NUMBER: 2011-1 7660 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

Ill. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 34 : 
Statements/Interviews 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary 

2. Copy of subject notification letter dated 11-21-12 8-11 

3. Voluntary Relinquishment of License form of BARSOUM 12-14 

4. Documents obtained from United States District Court Middle District Of Florida Tampa 
Division 15-30 

5. Department of Health Investigative Services Community Pharmacy Inspections for dated 
09-28-12 31-32 

*EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE 
SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

These records are sealed pursuant to Section 456.057(10)(a), Florida Statutes and copies of 
same are not maintained in the Tampa Investigative Services office 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE CMâE NUMBER: 2011-1 7660 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #1 is the Case Summary with attached article titled "U.S. Attorney General announces arrest 
of 9 area doctors, 2 pharmacists on prescription drug charges". Article documents in summary: 

The pharmacist arrested are IHAB S. BARSOUM, 40 of Pasco County The roundup is part of 
"Pill Nation II," a Drug Enforcement Administration initiative..." 

Exhibit #3 is Voluntary Relinquishment of License form of BARSOUM for pharmacist license PS 
30945. On Wednesday, February06, 2013 Investigator TROUPE went to Pinellas County Jail; 
14400 gth Street North; Clearwater, Florida and presented BARSOUM with Voluntary 
Rehnquishment of Licensure form. BARSOUM declined to sign Voluntary Relinquishment of 
licensure form and indicated to this investigator that he will get in contact with his attorney prior to 
making any decision. BARSOUM indicated to this investigator that his address of record for all 
correspondence related to this case to be mailed to 17303 Ladera Estates Boulevard: Lutz, Florida 
33548. This investigator then handed Voluntary Relinquishment of Licensure form to correctional 
officier who then presented to BARSOUM. 

Exhibit #4 are documents obtained from United States District Court Middle District Of Florida 
Tampa Division: Documents consist of: 

- Superseding Indictment: 
o Count One — ". . . From an unknown date, but no later than 2007, and continuing 

through in or about July 2011, in the Middle District of Florida and elsewhere, the 
defendant, IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, did knowingly and intentionally conspire 
with other persons, both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to knowingly and 
intentionally dispense and distribute, and cause to be dispensed and distributed, 
quantities of Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance, not for a legitimate 
medical purpose and not in the usual course of professional practice..." 

o Count Two — "...On or about January 24, 2011, in the Middle District of Florida, the 
defendant, IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, did knowingly and intentionally act outside 
the course of professional practice by distributing, and causing to be distributed, 
Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance..," 

o Count Three — "...On or about February 2, 2011, in the Middle District of Florida, 
the defendant, IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, did knowingly and intentionally act 
outside the course of professional practice by distributing, and causing to be 
distributed, Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance..." 

o Count Four — "...On or about March 7, 2011, in the Middle District of Florida, the 
defendant, IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, did knowingly and intentionally act outside 
the course of professional practice by distributing, and causing to be distributed, 
Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance..." 

o Count Five — ". . . On or about April 13, 2011, in the Middle District of Florida, the 
defendant, IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, did knowingly and intentionally act outside 
the course of professional practice by distributing, and causing to be distributed, 
Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance..." 

o Count Six — "...On or about June 23, 2011, in the Middle District of Florida, the 
defendant, IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, did knowingly and intentionally act outside 
the course of professional practice by distributing, and causing to be distributed, 
Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance.,." 

o Forfeiture of ... Defendant's DEA Registration Number FTO131 386... Defendant's 
Florida Licensure Number PS30945..." 

• Verdict form. Form indicates the verdict of guilty for counts 1-6. 

Page 3 



l INVESTIGATIVE RE}-IJRT CASE NUMBER: 2011-1 7660 

concurrently... Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised 
release for a term of thirty-six (36) months as to counts one through six. All such terms to 
run concurrently (pages 25-30). 

Exhibit #5 is Department of Health Investigative Services Community Pharmacy Inspections for 
dated 09-28-12. Form indicates S & S Pharmacy as currently not operating. 

Page 4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh, 
Petitioner, 

v. DOH Case Nc. 2011-17660 

Il-4AB S. BAR5OUM, R.Ph. 
Respondent. 

VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent IHAB S. BARSOUM, R.Ph., license No. P530945, hereby voluntarily 

relinquishes Respondent's license to practice pharmacy in the State of Florida and states as 

follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid 

further administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that 

acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment shall be construed as disciplinary action against Respondent's license 

pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. As with any disciplinary action, this 

relinquishment will be reported to the National Practitioner's Data Bank as disciplinary 

action. Licensing authorities in other states may impose discipline in their jurisdiction 

based on discipline taken in Florida. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a pharmacist in the State 

of Florida. 

3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing pharmacy immediately 

upon executing this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from 

INV FOPJvI 423. Created 02-10 

EXHIBIT# 

p 



the practice of pharmacy until such time this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. In prder to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in 

a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby 

waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and 

waives a determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department 

when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, 

the investigative report of the Department of Health, and all other information obtained 

pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become public record and 

remain public record and that information is immediately accessible to the pubkc. Section 

456.073(10) Florida Statutes. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent 

agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the 

validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating 

this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of 

this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs related 

to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file 

materials concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration of this 

Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary 

INV FORIvI 423. Created 02-10 2 



Relinquishment and other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or predude the 

Board, or any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DATED this day of 

___________________________ 

2013. 

IHAB S. BAPSOUM 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF: 

Before me, personally appeared Ihab S. Barsoum whose identity is known to me 
by (type of identification) and who, under oath, 
acknowledges that his signature appears above, Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

day of 

____________________, 

2013. 

NOTARY PUBUC 
My Commission Expires: 

INV FORM 423, Created 02-10 
3 



Case 8:11 iviC-MAP Document 90 Filed 07/05/12 Page 1 of 6 PagelD 440 

ED 

z L — UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT Ptf /2:06 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION To 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. CASE NO. 8:1 1-CR-548-T-33MAP 
21 U.S.C. 846 

IHAB "STEVE' BARSOUM 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1) 
21 U.S.C. § 853 (Forfeiture) 

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT 

The Grand Jury charges: 

COUNT ONE 

From an unknown date, but no later than 2007, and continuing through in or 

about July 2011, in the Middle District of Florida and elsewhere, the defendant, 

IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, 

did knowingly and intentionally conspire with other persons, both known and 

unknown to the Grand Jury, to knowingly and intentionally dispense and 

distribute, and cause to be dispensed and distributed, quantities of Oxycodone, a 

Schedule II Controlled Substance, not for a legitimate medical purpose and not 

in the usual course of professional practice, contrary to Title 21 United States 

Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and 841(b)(1)(C). 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 846. 

1 

EXHI lfl 



Case 8:11 -cr-00548-\ .0-MAP Document 90 Filed 07/05/12 Page 2 of 6 PagelD 441 

COUNT TWO 

On or about January 24, 2011, in the Middle District of Florida, the defendant, 

IHAB "STEVE" 

did knowingly and intentionally act outside the course of professional practice by 

distributing, and causing to be distributed, Oxycodone, a Schedule I Controlled 

Substance. 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and 

841(b)(1)(C). 

COUNT THREE 

On or about February 2, 2011, in the Middle District of Florida, the defendant, 

IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, 

did knowingly and intentionally act outside the course of professional practice by 

distributing, and causing to be distributed, Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled 

Substance. 

All in violation of Title 21 • United States Code, Sections 841 (a)(1) and 

841 (b)(1 )(C). 

COUNT FOUR 

On or about March 7,2011, in theMiddle District of Florida, the defendant, 

IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, 

did knowingly and intentionally act outside the course of professional practice by 

distributing, and causing to be distributed, Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled 

2 



Case 8:1 1-cr-00548-\ Document 90 Filed 07/05/12 Page 3 of 6 PagelD 442 

Substance. 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and 

841 (b)(1 )(C). 

COUNT 

On or about April 13. 2011, in the Middle District of Florida, the defendant, 

Il-JAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, 

did knowingly and intentionally act outside the course of professional practice by 

distributing, and causing to be distributed, Oxycodone, a Schedule U Controlled 

Substance. 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and 

841 (b)(1)(C). 

COUNT SIX 

On or about June 23, 2011, in the Middle District of Florida, the defendant, 

IF-lAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, 

did knowingly and intentionally act outside the course of professional practice by 

distributing, and causing to be distributed, Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled 

Substance. 

All in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and 

841 (b)(1)(C). 

FORFEITURE 

1. The allegations contained in Counts One through Six of this Indictment 

3 



Case 8:11 C-MAP Document 90 Filed 07/05/12 Page 4 of 6 PagelD 443 

are hereby realleged and incorporated by reference for the purpose of alleging 

forfeitures, pursuant to the provisions of Title 21, United States Code, 

Section 853. 

2. From his engagement any or all of the violations alleged in Counts 

One through Six of the Indictment, punishable by imprisonment for more than 

one year, defendant, 

IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM, 

shatl forfeit to the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, 

Sections 853(a)(1) and (2), all of his right, title and interest in: 

a. property constituting and derived from any proceeds defendant 

obtained, directly or indirectly, as a result of such violations; 

and, 

b. property used and intended to be used in any manner or part 

to commit or to facilitate the commission of such violations. 

, The specific property to be forfeited includes, but is not limited to: 

a. Defendant's DEA Registration Number FIOl 31 386 

b. 2005 BMW, VIN # WBAEK73495B326752 

c. 2008 1 VIN # WBANU53538CT1 3324 

d. Defendant's Florida Pharmacist License Number PS30945 

4. If any of the property described above as being subject to forfeiture, 

as a result of any act or omission of the defendant: 

4 



Case 8:1 1-cr-00548-\ C-MAP Document 90 Filed 07/05/2 Page 5 of 6 FagelD 444 

a- cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence; 

b. has been transferred, sold to or deposited with a third person; 

c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court; 

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or, 

e. has been commingled with other property which cannot 

be subdivided without difficulty; 

the United States will seek, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, 

Section 853(p), forfeiture of any other property of said defendant up to the value 

of the forfeitable property. 

A TRUE BILL, 

,tc 
reperson 

ROBERT E. O'NEILL 
U ited States Attorney 

By: 
SHAUNA S. HALE 
Assistant United States Attorney 

By: - 

(6v1) JOSEPH K. RUDDY 
Assistant United States Attorney 
Chief, Narcotics Section 

TCrninai Ca,stBASSOtIM. Ihab 2011 R00193_sthQ_sLarsed1flQ 



F
O

R
M

 O
B

D
-3

4 
A

P
R

 1
99

1 

C
as

e 
8:

11
 -

cr
-0

05
48

-V
M

C
-M

A
P

 

N
o:

 8
:1

 1
-C

R
-5

48
-T

-3
3M

A
P

 

D
oc

um
en

t 9
0 

F
ile

d 
07

/0
5/

12
 

P
ag

e 
6 

of
 6

 P
ag

el
D

 4
45

 

U
N

IT
E

D
 S

T
A

T
E

S
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 C

O
U

R
T

 

M
id

dl
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
of

 F
lo

rid
a 

T
am

pa
 D

iv
is

io
n 

T
H

E
 U

N
IT

E
D

 S
T

A
T

E
S

 O
F

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

 

vs
. 

IH
A

B
 "

S
T

E
V

E
" 

B
A

R
S

O
U

M
 

S
U

P
E

R
S

E
D

IN
G

 I
N

D
IC

T
M

E
N

T
 

. 

V
io

la
tio

ns
: 

21
 

U
.S

.C
. 

§ 
84

6 
21

 
U

.S
.C

. 
§ 

84
1(

a)
(1

) 

A
 t

ru
e 

bi
ll,

 

F
or

ep
er

so
n 

F
ile

d 
in

 o
pe

n 
co

ur
t 

th
is

 5
th

 d
ay

 

of
 J

ul
y 

20
12

. 

C
le

rk
 

B
ai

l 
$ 

D
 

G
P

O
 0

63
 5

25
 



Case 8:11-cr-00548-'v..J-MAP Document 175 Filed 08/21ii2 Page 1 of 4 PagelD 863 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

V. CASE NO. 8:1l-CR-548-T-33MA2 

IHAB STEVE BARSOUM 

VERDICT FORM 

1. Count One of the Superseding Indiotnent 

As to the offense of conspiracy to knowingly and 

intentionally dispense and distribute, and cause to 

be dispensed and distributed, quantities of 

Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance, not 

for a legitimate medical purpose and not in the usual 

course of professional practice, in violation of 2]. 

U.S.C. § 846, 

We, the Jury, find the defendant, Thab "Steve" 

Barsoum: 
.1 

Guilty ' Not Guilty 



Case Document 175 FIled 08/21/12 Page 2 of 4 PagelD 864 

2. Count Two of the Superseding Xndictment 

As to the offense of knowingly and intentionally 

acting outside the course of professional practice by 

distributing, and causing to be distributed, 

Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance, in 

violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a) ), 

We, the Jury, find the defendant, Ihab 

Barsousu: 

Guilty Not Guilty 

3. Count Three of the Superseding Indictment 

As to the offense of knowingly and intentionally 

acting outside the course of professional practice by 

distributing, and causing to be distributed, 

Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance, in 

violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a) (1), 

We, the Jury, find the defendant, Ihab "Steve" 

Earsoum: 

Guilty Not Guilty 

2 



Case 8:1 1-cr-00548-\',,C-MAP Document 175 Filed 08/211i2 Page 3 of 4 PagelD 865 

4. Count Four of the perseding Indictment 

As to the offense of knowingly and intentionally 

acting outside the course of professional practice by 

distributing, and causing to be distributed, 

Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance, in 

violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a) (1), 

We, the Jury, find the defendant, Ihab "Steve" 

Barsouan: 

Guilty Not Guilty 

5. Count Five of the Superseding Indictment 

As to the offense of knowingly and intentionally 

acting outside the course of professional practice by 

distributing, and causing to be distributed, 

Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance, in 

violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a) (1), 

We, the Jury, find the defendant, Ihab "Steve" : 
Guilty Not Guilty 

S 



Case 8:11-cr-00548-V -MAP Document 175 Filed 08/2.. Page 4 of 4 PagelD 866 

6. Count Six of the g Indictment 
As to the offense of knowingly and intentionally 

acting outside the course of professional practice by 

distributing, and causing to be distributed, 

Oxycodone, a Schedule II Controlled Substance, in 

violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a) (1), 

We, the Jury, find the defendant, Ihab "Steve" 

Barsoum: 

Guilty Not Guilty 

SO SAY WE ALL, this - day of August 2012. 

F REPERSON 

4 



Case Document 218 Filed 02/05/13 Page 1 of 6 PagelD 1320 

AO 245B (Rev 06/05) Sheet 1 - Judgment in a Criminal Case 

UN/TED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE 

CASE NUMBER: 8:1 1-cr-548-T-33MAP 
USM NUMBER: 55623-018 

vs. 

IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM 's Attorney: Todd Foster. Ret. 

THE DEFENDANl: 

was found guilty on count(s) ONE through SIX of the Superseding Indictment after a pica of not guilty. 

TITLE & SECTION NATURE OF OFFENSE OFFENSE ENDED COUNT 

21 U.S.C. 1(a)( I), Conspiracy to Dispense and July 2011 ONE 
846 and 841 (b)( I )(C) Distribute Oxycodone Not for 

a Legitimate Professional Practice 

21 U.S.C. §*84 l(a)( 1) and Distribution of Oxycodone Outside January 24, 2011 TWO 1)(C) the Course of Professional Practice 

21 U.S.C. and Distribution of Oxycodone Outside February 2,201! 
841(B)(t )(C) the Course of Professional Practice 

21 U.S.C. and Distribution olOxycodone Outside March 7,2011 FOUR 
841 (B)( I )(C) the Course of Professional Practice 

21 U.S.C. (a)( 1) and Distribution of Oxycodone Outside April 13, 2011 FIVE 
84l(B)(l)(C) the Course of Professional Practice 

! U.S.C. and Distribution ofOxycodone Outside June 23, 2011 SIX 
841 (B)( I )(C) the Course ol' Professional Practice 

The defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 6 of this judgment. The sentence is imposed 
pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984. 

Continued on next page 



Case Document 218 Piled Page 2 of 6 PagelD 1321 
3 11 Rev 06 t Sheet I tp:tuC IWO) — ,Iuck!meru i a Criminal 

I )cicntlaiit: lI]AI1 "SINVIT IL\ItSOLNI Jud2ment — Pa2e 2 I ': 8:11 -3$Nl;\I' 

II IS rt.!RiI ER ORI)FRNI) that the must liR the United States Atttrrnev lurtlus district 31i 

LI:I\ s (iLLnv CIILII)UL' ollaine. residence, or niaitinu until alt lines, restitutitmi.. costs. arid Sliectal usSesSIflerTh 

liflOSeLl N\ are IulIv paid. II ordered it' restitution, the tlcIei)tI:iIll nottic the court arid F nited 
c'ta:l\ ru:rrerial ehanue in ltimie eireLII)1stJiices. 

I)iiie trllriposiiiurm }lSerltL-nce: Fehrtrar\ —1. 

(I 
7 / 

• 

Y / 

\ll((;IPt4I\ )l. I ç'OVINGlON 
Sl.A'lKS 1)tS'I'141("l' 

I )All;: Iehrtrarv 5. 113 



Case ...-MAP Document 218 Piled 02/05L. Page 3 of 6 PagelD 1322 

AO 245B (Rev 06/05) Sheet 2 - Imprisonment (Judgment in a Criminal Case) 

Defendant: IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM Judgment - Page 3 of 6 

Case No.: 8:1 l-cr-548-T-33MAP 

IMPRISONMENT 

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be 
imprisoned for a term of TWO HUNDRED FOUR (204) MONTHS as to Counts ONE through SIX. All such 
terms to run concurrently. 

._&. The Court makes the following mendations to the Bureau of Prisons: 

I) Confinement at I Coleman LOW or another LOW facility in Florida. 

The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal. 
— The defendant shall surrender to the United States Marshal for this district, 

— at — a.mip.m. on . 
— as notified by the United States Marshal. 

— The defendant shall surrender for service ofsentence at the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons. 

— before 2 p.m. on_. 
— as notified by the United States Marshal. 
— as notified by the Probation or Pretrial Services Office. 

RETURN 

I have executed this judgment as follows: 

Defendant delivered on 

___________________________ 

to 

_________________________________________ 

— at 

_______________________________________,with 

acertilied copy of this judgment. 

United States Marshal 

By:_______________________________________ 
Deputy United States Marshal 



Case Document 218 Filed Page 4 of 6 PagelD 1323 

AC 245B (Rev. 06/05) Sheet 3 - Supervised Release (Judgment in a Criminal Case) 

Defendant: IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM Judgment - - oI..t 
Case No.: 8:1 l-er-548-T-33MAP 

SUPERVISED RELEASE 

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of THIRTY-SIX 
(36) MONTHS as to Counts ONE through SIX. All such terms to run concurrently. 

The defendant must report to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is released within 
72 hours of release from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons. 

The defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime. Based on the probation officer's 
determination that additional drug urinalysis is necessary, the Court authorizes random drug testing not to exceed 
104 tests per year. The defendant shall not illegally possess a controlled substance. The defendant shall refrain from 
any [ use of a controlled substance. 

The defendant shall submit to one drug test within 15 days of release from imprisonment and at least two 
periodic drug tests thereafter, as determined by the court. 

.X The mandatory iestingprovisions of the Violent Crime Control Act are imposed. The court orders the 
defendant to submit to random drug testing not to exceed 104 tests per year. 

The defendant shall not possess a firearm, destructive device, or any other dangerous weapon. 

.X. The defendant shall cooperate in the collection of DNA as directed by the probation officer. 

If this judgment imposes a fine or restitution it is a condition of supervised release that the defendant pay 
in accordance with the Schedule of Payments sheet of this judgment. 

The defendant must comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court as as 
with any additional conditions on the attached page. 

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION 

I) the defendant shall not leave Ihejudicial district without the permission of the court or probation officcr: 

2) the defendant shall report the probation officer in a marntcr and frequency directed by the Court or Probation Officer: 

3) the delbndant shall answer truthfully l inquiries by the probation officer and foUow the instructions of the probation officer: 

4) the defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsihilities: 

5) the defendant shall worlc regularly at a lawful occupation. unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training. or niher 
acceptable reasons: 

6) the defendant shall notify the probation officer at least ten days prior to any change in residence or employment: 

7) the defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess. use. distribute. or administer any controlled 
substance or any paraphernalia rclatcd to auiy controlled substances, except as prescribed by a physician: 

8) the defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administered: 

9) the defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity and shall not associate with any person convicted of a 

felony, unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer; 

C) the defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at nny time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation crony 
contraband ohserved in plain view of the probation officer; 

I) the defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement officer; 

12) the defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of enforcement agency without the 
permission of the court: and 

13) as directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third panics olrisks that maybe occasioned by the delendant's criminal record 
or personal history or characteristics and shall permit the probation c,fliccr to make such notifications and to conf'irm the delendant's 
compliance with such notification 



Case Document 218 Flied Page 5 of 6 PagelD 1324 
AO 245B (Rev 06/05) Sheet 5 - Criminal Monetary Penalties (Judgment in a Criminal Case) 

Defendant: Il-lAB "STEVE" BARSOUM Judgment - Pagej... oI..j. 
Case No.: 8:1 l-er-548-T-33MAP 

CRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES 

The defendant must pay the total criminal monetary penalties under the schedule of payments on Sheet 6. 

Assessment Total Restitution 

$600.00 Waived IA 

— The determinqtion of restitution is deferred uptil_. An Amended Judgment lao Criminal C'ase (AO 245C) will be entered after such determination. 

— The defepdant must make restitution (including community restitution) to the following payces in the amount listed below. 

If the defendant makes a partial each payee shall receive an approximately proportioned payment, 
unless specified otherwise in the or percentage payment coiumn below. However, pursuant 
to 18 U.s.c. 3664(i), all non-federal victims must be paidbetore the United States. 

Name of Payee Total Loss* Restitution Ordered Priority or 

: 
— Restitution amount ordered pursuant to plea agreement $ 

— The defendant must pay interest on a fine or restitution oQmore than $2,500, unless the restitution or fine isj,aid in full beforeihe fifteenth day after the jydgment,pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(0. Al! ot the payment ions on Sheet 6 may be subject to penalties for delinquency and default, pursuant to I 8 U.S.C. § 36 12(g). 

— The court determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest and it is ordered that: 

— the interest requirement is waived for the fine restitution. 

— the interest requirement for the fine restitution is modified as follows: 

* Findings for the t,otal amount of tosses are reQuired under Chapters I 99A 110 I OA, and I 3A of Title 18 for 
the offenses committed on or after September 1.3, 1994, but before April fl, i 



Case Document 218 Filed 02/05/li Page 6 of 6 PagelD 1325 

AO 245B (Rev 06/05) Sheet 6- Schedule of Payments (Judgment in a Criminal Case) 

Defendant: IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM Judgment - Page ..j. of...j. 
Case No.: 8:1 l-cr-548-T-33MAP 

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS 

Having assessed the defendants ability to pay, payment of the total criminal monetary penalties are due as follows: 

A. Lump sum payment of $600.00 due immediately, balance due 

not later than 

_________, 

or 

— in accordance — C, — D, — E or — F below; or 

B. — Payment to begin immediately (may be combined with — C, — D, or F below); or 

C. — Payment in equal 

_____________ 

(e.g., weekly, monthly, quarterly) installments of S 

_______ 

over 
a penod of 

______ 

(e.g., months or years), to commence 

________ 

days (e.g., 30 or 60 days) afier 
the date of this judgment; or 

D. — Payment in equal (e.g., weekly, monthly, quarterly) installments of$ 

________ 

over a 
penod of , (e.g., months or years) to commence 

____________ 

(e.g. 30 or 60 days) after 
release from imprisonment to a term ot supervision; or 

E. — Payment during the term of re!ease will commence within (e.g., 30 or 60 days) after 
release from imprisonment. The court will set the payment plan an assessment of thc 
defendant's ability to pay at that time, or 

Special instructions regarding the payment of criminal monetary lies: 

Unless the court has expressly ordered otherwise, if this judgment imposes imprisonment, payment of criminal 
monetary penalties is due during imprisonment. All cnminái rnonetarj' penalties, except those payments made 
through the Federal Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, are made to the clerk of the court. 

l'lie defendant shall receive credit for all payments previously made toward any criminal monetary penalties 
imposed. 

— joint and Several 

Defendant and Co-Defendant Names and Case Numbers (including defendant number), Total Amount, Joint 
and Several Amount, and corresponding payee, if appropriate: 

— The defendant shall pay the cost of prosecution. 

— The defendant shall pay the following court cost(s): 

.X. The defendant shall forfeit the defendant's interest in the following property to the United States; The Court 
Orders that the defendant forfeit to the United States immediately and voluntarily any and all assets 
previously identified in the Indictment that are sukiect to forfeiture. ihe specific property to be forfeited 
includes but is not limited to: (a) defendant's DEA Registration Number FTC 13 1386; (b) 2005 BMW, VIN# 

and (c) 2008 BMW, VTh4#'WBANU53S38CTI 3324. 

Payments shall be applied in the following order: (l)assessrnent, (3) restitution princjpal, (3) r stitution interest 
(4) fine principal, (5) fine interest, (6) community restitution, (7) penalties, and (8) costs, including cost ol' 
prosecution and court costs. 

- 



(9 
09-28-2012 IT# 
Date - — 

File# 14936 

Insp# 104676 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
ROUTINE LOGfl NEW fl CUP,RENTLY NOT OPERATING CHEISE OWNER 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

WORIDA OF 

}TEALT 
a.DOH.STATE.FL.1Js 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
S & S PHARMACY INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
22447 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
/2012 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
PLATINUM PHARMACY & COMPOUND 

DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

IHABS.BARSOUM STREETADDRESS 
14937 BRUCE B. DOWNS BLVD #204 

TELEPHONE# EXT. 
(813) 866-5000 

CITY COUNTY 
TAMPA 39 

STATE/ZIP 
33613 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
30945 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHA.RMACIST,1NTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. 

Open 2. 
Close 3. 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
1 Rx department hours openS days for 40 hours per week. (64B16-28.108t, F.A.C,] 

: - 2 Pharmacy technicians property identified and supervised. (64818-27.420. F.A.C.] 
— 3 Phamiadst on duly when Rim department open. 64916-20.109. FAG.] 

- — 

— 
4 Propersignsdisplayed, 465.025(7), 84B16-28.109(1), F.A.C.](84916-28.1081,F.A.C.I 84916-28,1035, 916_27.1001, FAG.) 

X 
5 A verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to the patient or the patient's agent. 84616-27.020(1), F.A.C.] K - - — 6 Prescription department has convenient sink/running water. 102(1), F.A.CJ 
7 PrescriptIon department clean and sale. I64616-28.102(4), F.A.C,] 

8 Proper equipment and references as required. 64B16-28.'502(5)(a), F.AC.J 

5< 

x - — 

: ' — 9 Medication property labeled. 465.0255, P.S.) 64618-28.108, F.A,C.) . 

)< - — 
10 medications removed from the shelves, (64816-28.110, FAG.] 

- 

— — 
11 COl Policyafid Proceduresand quartertymeetings. 766.101,F.S.] 04B16-27.300, FAG.] 

)< 

a: 
)-( 

12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of conirotled substances. 465.022(4), F.S.] 
13 Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmadats. (893.04(1)(c) 0. P.S.] 64616-28.140(3)(b), FAG.] 

— 

)< - — 
14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64618-27.000, F.A.C.] 

15 All controlled substance presaiptions contain information required. 1893.04, F.S.] 
)< - — — 

: : ' — 16 Prescnptions for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 
meet the requirements of . F.S.]. 

17 Prescriptions may not be filled in excess of one year or six months for controls from the date written. 93.04(1)tg). F.S.J (84916-27.211, FAG.] — - — 
18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. .O?(lXa), F.S.I 
19 DEA222orderforrns property completed. 893.07, 1 
20 Controlled substance records and Rx information in computersysteni is retrievable. (2ICFR .28,140, F.A.C.) 

— : — ' — 
— 

- — 21 Controlled substance records maintained for4 years. (465.022(12)(b). P.S.] 
. 

— [ - — 22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. 2ICFR 1308.22(bX3)] (84916-28.140(3)(b), FA.C.I 
— 
— 

23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescriptions within 24 hours or dose of business on next business day of leaming of instance 
Reports indude all required lonnation. 465.015(3), F.S.J 

24 Record of theft or significant loss of eli controlled substances is being maintained end is being reported to the sheriff within 24 hours of discovery. (893.07(5), F.S.] (465.01 5, F.S] 
25 is reporting to the POMP within? days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), P.S.] 

28 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler pennif is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month, 
1499.0121(14), F.S.j 

27 Registered phannadst property prescribing. (64916-27.210. F.A.C.J 

28 Compounding records properly maintained. 64616-27.700, F.A.C.r 
29 Unit dose records properly maiotained. (465.016(1)Q), F.S.I(64816-28.116, F.A.C.) 

30 Pedigree records retrievable, 84P-12.012(3)(a)2., (d), F.A.C.l 
Note: If establishment is engaged in parenteralienteral compounding, a separate inspection form should be completed. 

Remarks: The pharmacy is not open. There is brown paper over all of the windows and a sign stating 'pharmacy department closed" is on the door, There is a sign on the doorwhich has the name of the pharmacy, which has the hours of operation scratched oft. The telephone number listed on the sign, (813) 866-5000, is a non-working number. There is no sign or information posted which tells patients where they can obtain their prescription records. 

According to an employee next to the pharmacy location, the pharmacist was arrested end on 09-26-12, people came in and moved everything out of the pharmacy, 
including taking alt of the shelves and cabinets out. 

I 
I have read ard have had fits inspection arid the laws arid regulations concemed herein explained, and do affirm thai tie information given herein is tue and cosraci to the of my I have received a copy or 
the Ucensee Bill of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT N/A 

tnstitubonal Representative 
INV 359 Revised l, 9/It, ICllO, 10/09, S/OG, 12/02. 12/00 

t"flarmacist 5ignature 

ID ff122 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH I 

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 
COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

File # 14936 I 

I CIWICS LOG NEW 0 OWIIERCJ] INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.01 7, 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES Insp # 101242 Note: If establishment is engaged in parentersl/enteral compounding, license must so indicate and a separate inspection form should be completed NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
PERMIT NUMBER DATE OF INSPECTION S & 5 PHARMACY INC 22447 

11/24/2010 DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER 
PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

TRINITY PHARMACY 
FF0131386 

STREET ADDRESS 
TELEPHONE # Err. NAB 5. BARSOUM STRINITYBLVD 
813-766-9955 I 

CITY COUNTY STATE/ZIP 
PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE t NEWPORT RICHEY 61 34655 
30945 PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS 

REGISTERED PNARMACIST/INTERNTrECHNICIAN LICENSE ft Monday Tuesday 

Close 

Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday i. 
2. 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
SATISFACTORY WA YES NO 

1 Current pharmacy perni't displayed, 5.015(1)(a),F,s,] 
26 All medicinal drug St's require date dispensed, 

El 2 Board of Pharmacy notified in writing of current St departinant 27 Prescription Identify the responsible dispensing pharmacists, l manager. (465.018,r.5.] ] 3 Current DEAreglst,ration 21CFR 1301.11] .023(1)(c)F.s,J 
28 Complete pharmacy prescription records. ] 

of 40 hours per weak. 64916-28.404, F.A.C.] 

4 St department hours open for business are posted and are a minimum 
maintains patient profila records. B16-27.800,F.Ac] El 

64B1 6-26.400(4),F.A.c.] 
5 Interns property registered and supervised. (465.01 3.F.S.] 

30 Controlled substance reedrds readily rebievable, 893,07,F.s] El 6 Pharmacy technicians property identified and supervised. 
31 Initials of pharmacist filling controlled substance . 64816-27.410,F4C] 

893.O4f1)(c)OFS] El 7 Proper pharmacist techn'oan ratio. 12:1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has 32 Prescrfberta name/addrsssjoEA # on all conbolled substance St Board of Pharmacy approval, (&4B16-27.410] 64816-27,420, F.A.C.] 5] El 8 Pharmacist license/renewal certificate displayed, 
33 Patient's name/address cm controlled substance Rx l6-27.100(i]FAC) 

93.04(1)(c)1Fs] El 9 Pharmacist on duty when St department open, 4B'16-28,1O9FAC 34 Date controlled substance St was filled on St. 
93.04(1)(c)6,F.5.) El 10 Generic drug sign displayed, (465.025(7),F.S] 

El 
35 All controlled substance prescriptions must have: drug , quantity and directions for use, 3.04(lxc$,F.S,] 11 Sign displayed Rx Dept Closed" if establishment is open and St 36 Date of refills written on controfled substance 55 or on computer records, 

Department closed. 64B16-28.iog(i ),F.A.C.] 
893.04(1 )(c)6,F.S.] El 12 Sign with meal break hours of Pharmacist, (no more than half hair), and stating that a pharmacist is available on premises for consultation upon El El 37 Pharmacist's Initials on controlled substance Rx refills. request. 916.27A00(6)FAC)' 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

893.04(1)( c)6,F.S.] l 13 Sign designating the private patient consultation area 

El 
38 Controlled substance refills limited to 5 wIthin 6 months from date 035,F.A.C] 

prescription was signed. 893.04(1 (g),F.S.] El 14 Adequate written and verbal offer to counsel patients. 39 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available ] 
for Inspection, .07(1)(a)Fs] El 

(64B16-27.820,P,A,C,] 
15 Adequase patient counseling by pharmacist when otter ts accepted 

40 DEA 222 order forms properly completed. 8g3 07(2),F.S.] El 16 Pa dept. has sink/running water convenient to St dept. 

El 
41 Controlled substance Rx information in computer system is retrievable, 

El El 
(64816-28 102,F.A,C 

I 

CFR 1306,22] (693.07,F.S] 14o,FA C.] 17 Prescription department has drug refrigeration storage. 

El 
42 Controlled substance maintained for 2 . 64B16-28.104,F.A.C] 

CFR 1304,04 & 1306.22] 893.07(4)(b),F,sj El IS Prescription department dean and safe. 64816-28.1Q5,F,Ac) 
El 43 Schedule V drug records/sales property kept. 893 08(aga),F.S,] El 19 Ra balance and weights or electronic balance; counting tray or other 

suitable counting device; assortment of and 44 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. 
El El 

pestles. 8.140(3)(c) DR (e),FACI 20 Current reference books and current copy of laws and rules in hard copy or in 

El 45 Registered pharmacist property prescribing. 4B16-27.210,FAC]• El El 
a readily available electronic data tom-tat 8491 6-28.107(1), F.A.C.] 

21 Medication properly labeled C,] 
El 46 Compounding records property maintained B16-28.140(4),FAC] 

* El El 22 All St medication within the St department, 64816-28.120(1),F.AC] El Unitdose records properly maintained (64016-27,410(1), 
El El 23 CDI Policy and Procedures and proof of quarterly meetings 

El (protected under (766.lO1F5] 64016-27.300, F.A.C.] 

(64616-28.110, FAG,] 
24 Dvidatad pharmaceuticals removed from . 0 * ions with fl maybe answered (not applicable). 25 *Discard on St label. 1 Remartcs: All questions are N/A. 

This pharmacy will be changing locations to 14937 Bruce B Downs Blvd. Tampa FL 33613. 

I have read and have had this inspadcrs report and the laws 2nd regulations concerned harem esplained, and do affirm that the information given herein is bus aed correct to the best of ny . PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT CHANGE OF LOCATION 

___________________________________ 

11-24-2010 ID l7 
Institutional Representative 

Date Investigator/sr. Pharmacist Signature NV 359 Revised 01/07 Replaces 12/02 



2110 First Street, Suite 137 300 N. Hogan Street, Room 700 Fort Myers, Florida 33901 Jacksonville, Florida 32202 
239/461-2200 904/301-6300 

239/461-2219 ((ax) 904/3014310 (Fax) 

U.S. Department of Justice 
207 NW 2nd Street United States Attorney 501 West Church Street, Suite 300 Room 118 Orlando, Florida 32805 Ocala, florida 34475 .A'uiddle District of Florida .7500 

352/629-0053 407/648-7643 (Fax) 352/6 71.6 743 (Fax) 
Main Office 

400 North Tampa Street, Suite 3200 
Tampa, Florida 33602 

813/274-6000 
873/2744358 (Fax) 

Reply to: Tampa 

-v 

October31, 2012 x 0 
Florida Department of Health 7 
Attn: Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

Re: Pharmacist License No. P530945 C. 
United States v. Thab "Steve" Barsoum 
Case No. 8:11-cr-548-T-33MAP 

Dear Sir/Maam: 

On October 31, 2012, the Honorable Virginia M. Hernandez Covington, United 
States District Judge, Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division, entered the attached 
Preliminary Order of Forfeiture divesting defendant Ihab S. Barsoum, of his right, title, 
and interest in his Florida pharmacist license # 50945. On August21, 2012, a jury 
found Ihab S. Barsoum, guilty on Counts One through Six of his Superseding 
Indictment. Barsoum's sentencing is currently scheduled for November 12, 2012. 

Should you have any questions regarding the foregoing, please call me at (813) 
274-6036. 

Sincerely, 

ROBERT E. O'NEILL 
Un cçStates Attorney 

By: 
J ESA.MUENCH 
Assistant United States Attorney 

Enclosures 



Case 8:1 1-cr-00548-VM .vIAP Document 179 Filed 1 age 1 of 2 PagelD 907 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. Case No. 8:1 1-cr-548-T-33MAp 

IHAB "STEVE" BARSOUM 

PRELIMINARY ORDER OF FORFEITURE 

THIS CAUSE comes before the Court upon the United States' Motion for a 

Preliminary Order of Forfeiture, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 853 and Federal Rule of 

Criminal Procedure 32.2(b)(2), which, at sentencing, shall become a final order of 

forfeiture as to defendant lhab Steve Barsoum's right, title, and interest in his 

Pharmacist License Number PS30945. 

Following the Jury's Verdict finding the defendant guilty of the Oxycodone 

violations charged in Counts One through Six of the Superseding Indictment, the 

Court found, by a preponderance of the evidence, that the defendant's 

pharmacist license shall be forfeited to the United States. Thus, the United 

States has established the requisite nexus between the property and the 

offenses of conviction. 

Accordingly, it is hereby 

ORDERED that for good cause shown, said motion of the United States is 

GRANTED. 

It is FURTHER ORDERED that, pursuant to the provisions of 21 U.S.C. 

§ 653(a) and Rule 32.2(b)(2), Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, all right, title 



Case 8:11-cr-00548-VM lAP Document 179 Filed 10/3W age 2 of 2 PagelD 908 

and interest of defendant Ihab Steve Barsoum in his pharmacist license number 

PS30945 are hereby FORFEITED to the United States of America for disposition 

according to law. 

The Court retains jurisdiction to entertain any third party claims that may 

be asserted in these proceedings, and to enter any further order necessary for 

the forfeiture and disposition of such property. 

ORDERED in Tampa, Florida, on October 31, 2012. ' VIR MA. M.. HERNANDEZ COVINGTON 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 

2 



T
A

M
PA

 I %
 

U
.S

. 
le

llt
 of ju

st
ic

e 
9 

F
 

M
id

fk
 D

is
tr

ii 
of

 F
io

iid
tt 

2 

1)
 \ 

j,,
q'

a 
S

ru
 

34
1(

) 

i 
—

 

fl:
a'

rp
'. 

F
hr

di
l't

 3
36

01
 

- 

—
. 

. 

j(i
(1

30
 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 c

ou
ns

el
 

pr
os

ec
ut

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
U

ni
t 

40
52

 B
al

d 
C

yp
re

ss
 W

ay
, 

B
in

 #
c-

65
 

, FL -3265
 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naton 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201300708 

GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY, INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY, INC 
5554 Sw 8TH STREET 
CORAL GABLES, FL 33134 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. Although the Respondent is not required to be 
present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 
4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850)-236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m. ;therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

Executive Director 

MØARD OF PHARMACY 
lorida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance ITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Governor 

To protect, prornote & improve the health 

of all people in Flodda through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

H EALTE State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Vernisha Foster, Assistant General Counsel 

Determination of Waiver 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Good Sight Pharmacy, Inc 

DOH Case Number 2013-00708 

DATE: August 14, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Good Sight Pharmacy, Inc 
Subject's Address of 5554 SW th Street 
Record: Coral Gables, Florida 33134 
Enforcement Address: 5554 SW th Street 

Coral Gables, Florida 33134 

Subject's License No: 25104 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 17932 

Initial Licensure Date: 12/3/2010 

Board Certification' No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S.(2012) 

through a violation of Rule 64B16-28.202(3), F.A.C. 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: March 28, 2013 
Gavin Meshad and Michele Weizer 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department Of Health/Investigative Services 
Unit-Miami 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Determination of Waiver 
Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint 
Exhibit B — Copy of certified mail receipt 

ida Department of Health wwW.FlorldasHeaith.com 
of the General Counsel • Prosecution SeMces Unit 

I1TER;HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way! Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 701 

FACEBOOKFLDepartmentotHealth 
Express mail address: 2565 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

YOUTtJSE: fldoh 
PHONE; 8501245.4444 FAX 85012454683 



Exhibit C — Affidavit of diligent search 
Exhibit D — Proof of publication 
Exhibit E — Board affidavit 
Exhibit F — Clerk affidavit 
Motion to Assess Costs 
Exhibit A - Affidavit of fees and costs expended 
Exhibit 1 — Complaint Cost Summary 
Exhibit 2 — Itemized Cost by Complaint 
Supplemental Report dated 06/17/2013 
PCP Memo 
Final Investigative Report 
Exhibits 1-2 

Disciplinary Guidelines: $1,500 fine up to revocation 

PRELIMINARY CASE : 
On or about May 23, 2012, a Department inspector attempted to conduct an inspection at 

Respondent's address of record. Upon arriving to Respondent's address of record, it was discovered 
that Capital Pharmacy Discount was operating at that address. Respondent had not reported a 

closure. 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-00708 

GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY, INC., 

Respondent. 

________________________________________/ 

MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF WAIVER AND FOR 

FINAL ORDER AFTER A HEARING NOT INVOLVING 

DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final 

Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been determined 

and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore Petitioner states: 

1. An Administrative Complaint was filed against Respondent on May 

28, 2013. A copy of said Administrative Complaint is attached hereto as 

Petitioner's Exhibit A. 

2. Copies of the Administrative Complaint, Explanation of Rights form, 

and Election of Rights form were sent to Respondent via certified US mail on: 

April 13, 2013 (7196 9111 5773 2310). Service on Respondent via certified mail 



was not successful. A copy of the certified mail receipt and envelope is attached 

as Petitioner's Exhibit B. 

3. Thereafter, Petitioner requested personal service on Respondent, 

which was unsuccessful on June 17, 2013. The affidavit of personal service is 

attached as Petitioner's Exhibit C. 

4. Thereafter, Petitioner requested that the Community Newspapers 

publish a Legal Notice of Action beginning on July 1, 2013 and appearing 

consecutively on July 8, 15, 22, 2013. Petitioner received proof of publication on 

July 26, 2013, which is attached as Petitioner's Exhibit D. 

5. Rule 28-106.111(2), Florida Administrative Code, provides iii 

pertinent part that: 

persons seeking a hearing on an agency decision 

which does or may determine their substantial interests 

shall file a petition for hearing with the agency within 

21 days of receipt of written notice of the decision. 

6. Rule 28.106.111(4), Florida Administrative Code, provides that: 

Any person who received written notice of an agency 

decision and who fails to file a written request for a 

hearing within 21 days waives the right to request a 

hearing on such matters. 



7. Respondent has not filed an Election of Rights form, or any other 

responsive pleading, with Petitioner or the Board of Pharmacy within the 

required twenty-one (21) day period of time. Copies of affidavits supporting the 

same are attached hereto as Petitioner's Exhibits E and F. 

8. Based upon the foregoing, Respondent has waived the right to 

dispute any materials facts contained within the Administrative Complaint. 

Therefore, there are no disputed issues of material fact to be resolved by the 

Board. 

9. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a copy of 

the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, establishing a 

prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board find that 

Respondent has waived the right to dispute any materials facts contained within 

the Administrative Complaint and enter a Final Order imposing whatever 

discipline upon Respondent's license that the Board deems appropriate. 



Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Vernisha Foster 
Assistant General Counsel 

DOH Prosecution Services Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin -65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar #0092743 
(850) 245-4444 telephone 
(850) 245-4683 facsimile 
Email:vernisha_foster@doh.state.fl. US 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this day of 

________, 

2013, 

to: Good Sight Pharmacy, Inc., 5554 Southwest th Street, Coral Gables, 

Florida 33134. 

Vernisha'Foster 
Assistant General Counsel 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, , 
. CASE NO. 2013-00708 

GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY, 

I 
ADMINISTRATIVE COM PLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Good Sight Pharmacy, ., and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was a community pharmacy within the state of Florida, having 

been Issued permit number PH 25104. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 5554 Southwest th Street, 

Coral Gables, Florida 33134. 

4. On or about May 23, 2012, a Department inspector attempted 

to conduct an Inspection of Respondent at 5554 Southwest th Street, 

Coral Gables, Florida 33134. 

5. On or about May 23, 2012, the Department's inspector found 

Capitol Pharmacy Discount operating at Respondent's address of record. 

6. As of January 10, 2013, Respondent had not reported a closure 

of the pharmacy. 

• 7. Rule 64B16-28.202(2), Florida Administrative Code, defines 

"closing of a pharmacy" as the cessation or termination of professional and 

business activities within a pharmacy for which a permit has been Issued 

under Chapter 465, Flotida Statutes. 

8. Rule 64B16-28.202(3), Florida Administrative Code, provides 

that prior to closure of a pharmacy, the permittee shall notify the Board of 

Pharmacy In wilting as to the effective date of closure, and return the 

pharmacy permit to the Board of Pharmacy office or arrange with the local 

Bureau of Investigative Services of the Department to have the pharmacy 

DOH v. Good Sight Pharmacy, Inc. 2 

Case No. 2013-00708 
AC — 1-3, failure W close propeily 



permit returned to the Board of Pharmacy, and notify the Board of 

Pharmacy which permittee is to receive the prescription files. 

9, Respondent failed to do one or more of the 

a. Notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing of Respondent's 

effective date of closure; 

b. Return or arrange to return the pharmacy permit; and/or 

c. Advise the Board of Pharmacy which permittee is to 

receive the prescription files. 

10. Ion 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2011), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 

permittee who has violated any of the requirements of Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy. 

it. Rule 64B16-28.202(3), Florida Administrative Code, provIdes 

that prior to closure of a pharmacy, the permnittee shall notify the Board of 

Pharmacy in writIng as to the effective date of closure; and return the 

pharmacy permit to the Board of Pharmacy office or arrange with the local 

Bureau of Investigative Services of the Department to have the pharmacy 

DOFI v. Good Ight Pharmacy, Inc. 3 

Case No, 2013-00708 
AC — PH, to dose properly 



permit returned to the Board of Pharmacy, and notify the Board of 

Pharmacy which permittee Is to receive the prescription files. 

12. Respondent failed to follow the pharmacy closure requirernenls 

as set forth In Rule 64916-28.202(3), lorida Administrative Code, by 

to do one or more of the fbltowing: 

a. Notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing of Respondent's 

effective date of closure; 

b. Return or arrange to return the pharmacy permIt; and/or 

c. Advise the Board of Pharmacy which perniittee is to 

receive the prescription files. 

13. Based on the fbregoing, Respondent has violated tion 
465.023(I)(c), Florida Statutes (2011), by violating Rule 64316-28.202(3), 

Florida Administrative Code, by failing to notify the Board of Pharmacy in 

writing as to the effective date of closure, and return the pharmacy permit 

to the Board of Pharmacy office or arrange with the local Bureau of 

Investigative Services of the Department to have the pharmacy permit 

returned to the Board of Pharmacy, and notify the Board of Pharmacy 

which permittee is to receive the prescription files. 

OCH v. Good Sight Pharmacy, Inc. 4 

Case No. 20t3-00708 
AC - P14, to dose propeily 



WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's Ucense, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SXGNED this day of_____________________ 0a 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

Sthte S geon General and Secretary of Health 

"Foster 
Assistant General Counsel 
DON Prosecution Services Unit 

FILED 
HEALTH 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin c-65 

CLERK Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
CLERK AngelSafldet'S Florida Bar # 0092743 
DATE MAfl8fl!3 Telephone: (850) 245 1111 

FacsimIle: (850) 245-4683 

IVF 

PCI' Members: Meshad and Weizer 

OCH v. Good Sight Pha,macy, inc. 
Case No. 20L3-00708 
Ac — , (&Iure to dose properly 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 

conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 

cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456d072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board l 
assess costs lated to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DOH v. Good Sight , Inc. 
Case No. 2013-00708 
AC - PM, failure W dose propetly 



N
I
X
I
B
 

3
3
1
3
4
1
4
0
7
-
1
N
 

R
E
T
U
R
N
 

T
O

 
U

N
A

B
L

E
 
T
O
 

U
N
A
B
L
E
 

T
O

 
R
E
T
U
R
N
 

T
O

 

1 /j j/i/, ti 'hi 

i a 
r 

/ 
W

O
R

D
A

 
O

F 

H
 H

E
A

LT
 

lA
icr 

- 

P
rosecution S

ervices U
nit 

4052 B
ald C

ypress W
ay, B

in #C
65 

o 
v 

—
 

02 
IA

 
0004371978 

A
F

R
C

Jg 
2013 

M
A

ILE
D

 F
R

O
M

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

 32301 

7196 
9008 fl 

57?3 
2310 

05/29/13 

T
allahassee, F

lorida 32399-3265 

IC
 

4 

11 

SE
N

D
E

R
 

FO
R

W
A

R
D

 
F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 

S
E
N
D
E
R
 

F
 

>
—

 
4:- 

—
 

N
) 

y S
 



TO: 

7191, 91MTh 9111 5773 2310 

SENDER: 

REFERENCE: 

US Postal Service 

Receipt for 
Certified Mail'" 
No Insurance Coverage 
Do Not Use (or International Mail 

I 

11 
.— C O 

0 
tn 

I- 
in 

C 

I- 
C 0 

3. ServIce Type CERTIFIED MAIL'" 

4. RestTlcted Delivery? (aim Fee) Yas 

Good Sight Pharmacy 
5554 Southwest th Street 

Coral Gables, Florida 33134 

STIP PACK 2013-00327 /Foster 
PS Form 3811. January 2005 Domestic Return Receipt 

STIP PACK 
Pauline/Foster 
Date Mailed 4/9/2013 
2013-00327 

PS Form 3800. January 2005 

RETURN 
RECEIPT 
SERVICE 

Postage 

Certified Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 

Restricted Delivery 

Total Postage & Fees 

POSTMARK OR DATE 

I 

7196 9008 9111 5773 2310 

COMPLETETHIS SECTION ON DELIVERY 

A. Received by (Please Prim B. Date of Delivety 

c. Slgriofure 

x Q*eant 
fljMdresser 

1. Article Addressed to: 

D. Is delivery address different tram Item 1? 
II YES, enter delivery address below: 

Reference information 

c Yes 
D No 



USPS.com® - Track & Cnnfirm Page 1 of 1 

English Customer USPS Mobile Register! Sign In 

Service 

Search USPS.coni or Track Packaç 

Quick Tools Ship a Package Send Mail Manage Your Mail Shop Business Solutions 

Track & Confirm 
GET EMAIL UPDATES PRINT DETAILS 

YOUR LABEL NUMBER SERVICE STATUS OF YOUR ITEM OATS S TIME LOCATION FEATURES 0 Notice Left April13, 2013, 11:26 am MIAMI, FL 33134 CertIfied Mail'" 

Arrival at Unit April13, 2013, 7:47 am MIAMI, FL 33134 

DepartUSPS Sort April 13,2013 CPA 
Facility LOCKA, FL 33054 

Processed through April 12, 2013, 7:02 pm CPA 
USPS Sort Facility LOCKA, FL 33054 

Depart USPS Sort April 12,2013 CPA 

ility , LOCKA,FL33054 

Processed through April 11, 2013, 3:46 pm OPA 

USPS Sort Facility LOCKA, FL 33054 

Dopart USPS Sort April 0,2013 TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 

Facility 

Processed through April 9,2013, 10:55 pm TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 

ISPS Sort Facility 

Check on Another Item 

your label (or receipt) number? 

Find 

LEGAL ON USPS.COM ON ABOUT.USPS.COM OTHER LISPS SIltS 
Privacy Policy Government Services r About USPS Home Business Customer Gateway I 

Terms or use Buy Stamps & Shop I Newsroom Postal 
I Prirt a Label with Postage Mail Service Updates ' Inspector General 

No FEAR Act LEO Data I Cuslomer Service Forms & Publications , Postal Explorer, 
Delivering Solutions to the Lasi Mile , Careers 
Bile Index 

Copyright© 2013 usPs. All Rights Reserved. 

https ://tools.usps.comlgo/TrackConfirmAction_input'?qtc_tLabels 1=719690... 5/13/2013 



40
52

 B
al

d 
C

yp
re

ss
 W

ay
, 

B
in

 #
C

65
 

__
__

 

3 
h-

.y
 

P
nr

:n
 

02
1A

 
° 

00
04

31
19

16
 
9 

20
13

 
M

A
IL

E
D

 F
R

O
M

 Z
IR

C
O

D
E

 3
23

01
 

- 

I 
1 

I'i
tJ

iti
 1

1 

a 

F
LO

R
ID

A
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 

H
E

A
L

T
 

Pr
os

ec
ut

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
U

ni
t 

1.
 

71
96

 
90

06
 

57
73

 
23

27
 

T
al

la
ha

ss
ee

, 
F

lo
rid

a 
32

39
9-

32
65

 

D
 

U
 0 i C

- 

a.
 

Je
xy

 P
er

ez
 

95
51

 
B

ou
1e

V
at

'd
 

A
pa

rt
m

en
t 

31
2 

M
ia

rn
', 

Fl
or

id
a 

33
17

2 
k 



USPS.com® -Track & ("-nfirm Page 1 ot I 

English Customer USFS Mobile - Register / Sign in 

Service 

Search USPS.com or Track Packaç 

Quick Tools Ship a Package Send Mail Manage Your Mail Shop Business Solutions 

Track & Confirm 
CT EMAIL UPDATES PRINT OETAILS 

YOUR LASEL NUMBER IcE STATUS OP YOUR ITEM DATE & TiME LOCATION URES 

11969008911157132327 Delivered May IC, 2013, 11:42am TALLAHASSEE, FL 

- 

- Available for May 9, 2013, 5:11 am TALLA1-tASSEE, FL 32399 

Depart USPS Sort May 7,2013 TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 

Facility 

Processed through May 7,2013,7:29 pm TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 

USPS Sort Facility 

Unclaimed April 27, 2013, 3:34 pm MIAMI, FL 33172 

Notice Left AprIl 13, 2013, 3:38 pm MIAMI, FL 33172 

Processed through Apr11 13.2013, 7:31 am CPA 

USPS Sort Facility LOCKA, FL 33054 

Depart USPS Sort AprIl13, 2013 OPA 

Facility LOCKA, FL 33054 

Processed through April 12, 2013, 4:55 pm CPA 
USPS Sort Fadllty LOCKA, FL 33054 

Depart USFS Sort April12, 2013 CPA 

Facility LOCKA, FL 33054 

Processed through Apr11 11,2013, 3:46 pm CPA 
USPS Sort Fadilty FL 33054 

Depart USFS Sort April 9,2013 TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 

Facility 

Processed through April 9,2013, 10:55 pm TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 

USFS Sort Fadlity 

Check on Another Item 

VVhat's your label (or receipt) number? 

Find 

LEGAL ON USPS.COM ON ABCUT.USPS.COM OTHER USFS SITES 

Privacy Policy Government Services About USFS Home Business customer ' 
Terms of Use , Buy Stamps & Shop Newsroom, Postal 

I Phnl a Label with Mail Service ' Inspector General 
No FEAR Act EEC Data , Customer Service Forms & Publications, Postal Explorer 

Delivering Solutions to the Last Mile, Careers, 
Site Index 

Copyright© 2013 USPS. All Rights Reserved, 

https ://tools.usps.com/go/TrackConfirmAction.action 5/13/2013 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve die health 
of all people in Flodda through integrated 
state, & efforts. 

HEALTh 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

Johr H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

vs 

Petitioner 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naflon 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

Case No. 201300708 
GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY INC 

Respondent 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Afflant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida, 

2) That on 05/20/l3and 06/10/13 AND 06/17/13 Affi ant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve ESO/ERO 
and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

_Affiant made personal service on Respondent at Respondent's usual place of abode 

&Affiant was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown in the 
DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the computer 
terminal or Board office; (c) Accurint (d) Division of Drivers, Licenses; 

_____________________________ 

Sunday Adesina 

Affiant 

State Of Florida County Of MIAMI-DADE 

Florida Department of Health 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance Bureau of Enforcement 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin X-XX • Tallahassee, FL 32399- 
PHONE: 3054705503• FAX 305-499-2090 

INV FORM 321 

Before me, personally appeared whose identity is known to me by 

___________ 

(type of identification) and hho, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. I 
Swam to or affirmed by A 

__________ ______________ 

4 
this day of 20 

Notary of My Commission Expires 

Type or Print Name 

I 

EXPHan- TWITTER:HealthyFLA lth 
YOUTIJBE: fldoh 



A FREE AND INDEPENDENT NEW:. ER VOICE 

COMMUNITY NEWSPAPERS 
PUBLISHED MONDAY 

MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FLORIDA 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE: 

-LEGAL 
13 JUL 26 AN $: Q1 

Community Newspapers 
6796 SW. 62nd Avenue 

South Miami, Flloride 33143 
305-669•7355 Ext. 228 • Fax: 305-662-6980 

NQ7ICE OF ACTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD n 

phsrnacytt . 

Good SwhiPhantncbc Inc. 
SSB4SouthwiSt BthSbeot 

- CoraLoablee, Florldø 33134 
& -., I 

- Fcntaln.bteauLBlVd; 
Aparbnent312 - 

Mitral, Florida 33172 

c*SEtlOz 2013-00798 IIO.: 
The l)epartmant àt:Health 
Ms ilIed an Administrative 
ComplalntagdnstypuacO 
of which may be 
.contadting, 
Assistant- General Counsel, 

Way, Bin 
*055, 'Flor1da 

- 32399-3255. (850) 245-4444. 
If no contact has beep made 
by you ooncoming the above. 
by March27:201 34he matter 
of ihWA minlstrativa Corn- 

an 
ensuing meeting of fl• Board 
of i'harmacy In an Informal 

•pucceedlng. -: 
In accordance -v4ththeArnar- 

-Disabilities Act 
person&needtng.tspeclal ac- 

-conimadation krparttqlpatè.in 
this pwceedlng should contact 
the undMdtial Oragenoy send- 

the7prppeedlng 
the 

4444, (TOO) 
or via. 
RoridaBalaySoMce 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared GEORGIA Il who on oath says she is OFFICE MANAGER of Legal Advertising 
of Community Newspapers, published Monday at Miami-Dade, Florida; 
that the attached copy of advertisement, being a Legal Advertisement 
of Notice in the Matter of 

NOTICE OF ACTION 
THE LICENSE TO PRACTICE PHARMACY OF 
GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY, INC. 
CASE NO. 2013-00708 

in the XXXXX Court, was published in said newspaper in the 
issue of 

101,07108,07/15,07/2212013 

Affiant further says that the said Community Newspaper, published at 
Miami-Dade County, Florida, and that the newspaper has heretofore 
been continuously published in said Miami-Dade County, Florida, and 
has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in Mi- 
ami, Florida, Miami-Dade County, and additional mailing offices, for a 

period of one year next preceding the first publication of the attached 
copy of advertisement; and aft ant further says that she has neither paid 
br promised any person, firm or corporation any rebate, commission 

r refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication 
in the said newspaper. 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION - 

AFFIANT & 

22ND day of 

________________________ 

JESUS TOLEDO 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

JULY 2011. 

(SEAL) 

My Commission Expires: 

JESUS C. TOLEDO 

Notary Public - Slate of Florida 

tJ")-E My Comm. Expfrcs Apr 10, 2017 

Commission # EE 876555 

Bonded Through National Notary Assn. 

Personally 

EXHIBIT 



on: 
To protect & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through 

slate, couMy & community efForts. 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nafon 

I, -V hereby certify in my official capacity as 

custodian for the Board of Pharmacy licensure files that the Board of Pharmacy 

as of 

other responsive pleading 

has no evidence of an Election of Rights form or 

requesting a hearing prior to any agency action 

regarding Good Sight Pharmacy, INC., CASE NUMBER 2013-00708 

which would affect the Subject's substantial interests or rights. 

ustodian of Records 
Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Before me, personally appeared fl1'tv4e whose 

identity is known to me (type of identification) and 

who, under, oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed this u day of 2013. 

Florida Department of Health 
ci the General Counsel • Prnseujflon SeMcos Unit 

4052 Bald Way, Bin 0-65 -Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — SuIte 105 

PKONE: 8501245-4444 FAX 850/245-4683 

EI 
www.FlorldasHealth.com lthyFI.A 

FACE BOO C Oe pa rtm a n tot ith 
VOUTUBE: fldoh 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. MD, FAGS 
State Surgeon General & 

Hsfl ISON 



Rick Scott Mission; 
I I 

To protect, promote & improve Ihe hearth 
of all people In Florida through integrated 

j John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS stale, efforts. 

HEALTH 
I 

Stats Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision; To be the Itealthiest State in the NatIon 

AFFIDAVIT 

, Deputy Clerk for the Department Clerk's 

Office, hereby certify in my official capacity as custodian for the Department Clerk's 

records, that the Department Clerk's Office has not received an Election of Rights form 

or other responsive pleading, which requests a hearing prior to any Department action 

regarding Case Name, Good Sight Pharmacy, INC., Case Number 2013-00708, 
which would affect the Respondent's substantial interests or rights. 

Custodian of Record 
Department Clerk's Office 

Before me, personally appeared identity is known to 

me by personally known (type of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges 

that his/her signature appears above. 

of 

__________________, 

2013. Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

____ __________________ 

P-:GELA BARTON 
My Commission Expires: flc16M r'uauc .STAflOF 

COMMISSION #009221 54 
EXPIRES 9/1/2013 

BON0EOIHRU 58-NOTARY 

Florida Department of Health .com 
Office of the General Counsel - Prosecution Services Unit 

TWITTER:HealthyFLA 4052 Bald Cyprus Way, Bin C-65 Tallatiassee FL 1701 1eaITh Express mail address: 2585 Merdiants Row — Suite 105 
VOUTUSE: fldoh PHONE: 8501245.4444 • FAX 850/245-4683 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

. CASE NO. 2013-00708 

GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY, INC., 

Respondent. 

______________________________________I 

MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION ) 

COMES NOW, the Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry 

of a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the 

investigation and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner 

states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of 

Pharmacy will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary 

action and will enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 



In addition to any other discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or 
after July 1, 2001, pursuant to this section or 
discipline imposed through final order, or 
citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001, for a 

violation of any practice act, the board, or the 
department when there is not board, shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and 
prosecution of the case. Such costs related to 
the investigation and prosecution include, but 
are not limited to, salaries and benefits of 
personnel, costs related to the time spent by 
the attorney and other personnel working on 
the case, and any other expenses incurred by 
the department for the case. The board, or the 
department when there is no board, shall 
determine the amount of costs to be assessed 
after its consideration of an affidavit of itemized 
costs and any written objections . . . - 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted 

in costs in the total amount of $703.11, based on the following 

itemized statement of costs: 

F IL_ 
IL 

*****CosttoDate***** 
Hours II Costs 

0.4011 1 1 : II 11 
compliance: 

[ 
o.ooll o.ool 

Sub Total: [ 10.2011 1 
Expenses to 
Date: 

Prior Amount: [ 

{_______________________ 
so.ool 

Total Costs to 
I I____________ $703.11F 

2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against 

the Respondent in the amount of $479.13 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of 

the costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests 

that the Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based 

upon its consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any 

written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and 

assess costs in the amount of $479.13 as supported by competent, 

substantial evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any 

other discipline imposed by the Board and is in accordance with 

Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes. 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the 

Board of Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $479.13. 



DATED this day of , 2013. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Foster 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar # 0092743 
(850) 245-4444 telephone 
(850) 245-4683 facsimile 
Email:vernishafoster@doh .state.fLus 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Motion to Assess Costs has been provided by U.S. Mail this 

day of , 2013, to: Good Sight Pharmacy, Inc., 5554 

Southwest th Street, Coral Gables, Florida 33134. 

Vernisha Foster 
Assistant General Counsel 

4 



8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
foflowing method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 
keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of , 2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is pers.onally known to me. U 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 

Name of Notary Printed 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 201 3-00708 (Department of Health v. GOOD SIGHT 
PHARMACY, INC., PHARMACY) are SEVEN HUNDRED THREE 
DOLLARS AND ELEVEN CENTS ($703.11). 

6) The costs for DOH case numbers 201 3-00708 (Department of Health 
v. GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY, INC., PHARMACY) are summarized in 

Exhibit I (Cost Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 2013-00708 
(Department of Health v. GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY, INC., 
IARMACY) are detailed in Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and 
Itemized Expense Report and receipts), which is attached to this 
document. 

1 



8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 
keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 

______________, 

2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is per onally known to me. (3 

Notary Signature 

Name of Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201300708 

Page 1 ot 1 

Subject's Name: GOOD PHARMACY, INC 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fLus/IRMOOTIMETRAKJCSDETL.ASP 8/20/2013 

I 

***** Cost to Date 

j Hours Costs 
Complaint: 1 1 1 1 
Legal: 

] 1 1 
Compliance: 

] l $0.00] 

______________________ 
[ **********l 

Sub Total: 10.20J 1 
Expenses to Date: 

] so.ool 
PHor Amourtt: so.ooj 

ITotal Costs to Date: 5703.111 



St
af

f 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ll 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

IC
O

N
S(

JM
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

U
N

IT
 

- 
I 

13
2 

0.
10

 
$5

4.
90

 
$5

.4
9 

01
/1

1/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
C

A
SE

FI
L

E
 

H
A

 1
66

 
0.

30
 

$1
7.

53
 

$5
.2

6 
02

/1
8/

20
 1

3 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 

H
A

16
6 

0.
60

 
$1

7.
53

 
$1

0.
52

 
02

/1
8/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
PO

R
T

 IO
N

 
Su

b 
T

ot
al

 
1.

00
 

$2
1.

27
 

SE
R

V
IC

E
S 

U
N

IT
 

M
12

1 
I 

1.
40

 
$6

3.
98

 
$8

9.
57

 
05

/1
5/

20
13

 
6 

SU
PP

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

M
12

8 
0.

40
 

$6
3.

98
 

$2
5.

59
 

05
/1

5/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

M
12

1 
I 

0.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

1.
99

 
05

/1
6/

20
13

 
6 

SU
PP

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

M
12

1 
I 

0.
60

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

8.
39

 
05

/2
0/

20
13

 
6 

SU
PP

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

1 
I 

1.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
$9

5.
97

 
06

/1
0/

20
13

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

L
 T

IM
E

 

M
12

1 
1 

1.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

3.
98

 
06

/1
0/

20
13

 
6 

SU
PP

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

1 
1.

60
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
02

.3
7 

06
/1

7/
20

13
 

6 
SU

PP
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

L
IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

7.
00

 
$4

47
.8

6 

PR
O

SE
C

U
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S 
U

N
IT

 

H
L

L
92

A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
03

/0
5/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 

H
L

L
92

A
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
03

/0
5/

20
 1

3 
46

 
L

E
G

A
L

 R
E

SE
A

R
C

H
 

H
L

L
92

A
 

0.
60

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$6

32
1 

03
/0

5/
20

 13
 

28
 

PR
E

PA
R

E
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
E

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 

H
L

L
92

A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
03

/0
5/

20
13

 
29

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 

H
L

L
92

A
 

0.
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

0.
64

 
03

/0
5/

20
13

 
28

 
PR

E
PA

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

H
L

L
92

A
 

0.
70

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$7

4.
45

 
04

/0
1/

20
13

 
79

 
ST

IP
U

L
A

T
IO

N
 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

2.
20

 
82

33
.9

8 
E

X
H

IE
P 

D
iv

is
io

n 
ol

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
us

an
ce

 

M
Q

b 
R

ep
or

t 
D

at
e 

08
/2

0/
20

13
 

C
 0

 N
E

 I
D

E
 N

T
IA

L
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

N
t 

20
13

00
70

8 

Pa
ge

 I
 
of

2 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
—

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 —

 
ite

ni
iz

ed
co

st
 

I 



**
*C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

T
II

A
L

**
* 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
13

00
70

8 

T
ot

al
 C

os
t 

S
70

3.
11

 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
- 

F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 —

 
ite

rn
iz

ed
co

st
 

ol
 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ut
an

ce
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
12

0/
20

13
 

S
ta

ll 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

iR
at

e 
C

os
t 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
at

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f2
 



iv
is

io
n 
l 

- 
**

* 
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
**

* 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

P
vt

 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 E

xp
en

se
 b

y 
C

om
pl

ah
ui

t 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

1 
of

 I 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 
St

af
f 

C
od

e 
D

at
e 

A
m

ou
nt

 
C

od
e 

E
xp

en
se

 C
od

e 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

--
- 

m
iz

ed
ex

pe
ns

e 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: MIAMI XI Date of Case: 05/13/13 Case Number: PH-201300708 

Subject: GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY INC 
5554 SW TH STREET Mi FL 33134 

Source: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
Prosecution Service Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

Prefix: 2205 License #:25104 Profession: Board: Report Date:06/17/13 
Pharmacy Pharmacy 

Period of lnvestigation:05/13/13-06/17/13 Type of Report: Supplemental 1 

Alleged Violation: See final report 

Synopsis: This supplemental report is predicated upon the receipt of request to hand serve 
Administrative complaint, election of right and stipulation received from attorney PAULINE 
BENNETT on behalf of attorney VERNISHA FOSTER of prosecution service unit to the subject and 
or registered agent of GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY INC. 

i. Copy Of Florida Department Of State Division Of Corporations print out showing registration 
agent for GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY INC pg 2-4 

52. Copy of due diligent search completed by this investigator pg.6 

Investigators Note: 
This investigator presented to the address of record and possible contacts obtained through DOH 
database to serve the Administrative complaint on 06/10/13 but the subject could not be reached 
either through the address of record or telephones numbers 

-a 
ta) 
C- C 

.c_ 

rn 

C 

06/17/12 

MI-211 
Medical Quality Assurance Investigator 

' 
A 

— r 
eceived 

Investigator Supervisor Services 

JUN 1 9 2013 

Distribution: HQ/ISU 
I 





12029 04:25 
SECRETARY OF STATE 

DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS 

Eli ,0932 11JUL27 4P19:23 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

The undssigned Incorporator(s), for the purpose of forming a corporation under 
eke lorida Business Corporation Act; hereby adopt(s) the following Ailicles of 

Incorporation. 

ARTICLE I - NAME 

The name of the corporation shall be: 

2) & b ye -Zc 

AfliCLt U - NUNCIThL OFFICE 

place of business end mailing of this corporation shall be: 

Q55 / fln icv,Z'e i ,t/frc' 

utncji in — S 
The number of shares of stock that this corporation is authorized to have 

outstanding at any one time is: 

ARTICLES IV - INITIAL ISTERED AGENT AND STREET 
ADDRESS 

The name oft initial registered agent is: 

sAy /iu1L 

'2 



H 11000190932 
ARTICLE V - 

(F') 

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION OflEGIstuaD AGENT 
IEEGISTFSEI) oFFIcE 

Having been as Registered Agent and to accept service of pmcess fbrthc above stated 
corporation at pface in this certificsa I hereby accept the appointment as Registered 

Agent and agree to act in this capacity. I Iwiher spec to comply with the pnwithons of all 
stafines related to the proper and complete performance of my duties, and Ism faznlUt with and 

accept the of my position as Registered Agent 

011000 190932 

08/07/2029 04:2S #0760 P. 003/003 

The nawe and address of the to 

The undersigned incorporator has executed these Articles of Incorporation this 
day of 20 

ARTWLE VI— DIRECFOR ) 
The name(s) and address (es) of the director(s) to these Articlesof 

Incorporation is (ase): 



HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nafion 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
Petitioner 

vs Case No. 201300708 
GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY INC 

Respondent 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida, 

2) That on 05/2Ofl3and 06/10/13 AND 06/17/13 Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve ESO/ERO 
and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

Affiant made personal service on Respondent at Respondent's usual place of abode 

XAffiant was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown in the 
DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the computer 
terminal or Board office; 

___________________________ 

Sunday Adesina 

Affiant 

State Of Florida County Of MIAMI-DADE 

_____________________whose 

identity is known td me by 

appears above. 

.Sworn to or affirmed by me this day of t 20 

4 JA AActf 
Notary of My Commission Expires 

Type or Print Name 

Florida Department of Health 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance' Bureau of Enforcement 
4052 Bald cypress Way. Bin X-XX ' Tallahassee, FL 32399- 
PHONE: 3054705803 'FAX 305-499-2090 

INv FORM 321 

Mission: 
To protect promote & ftnprove the heaith 
of afl people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACE 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

(c) Accurint (d) Division of Drivers, Licenses; S 

I 
Bef re me, personally LAJNf 

___________ 

(type of identification) and acknowledges that his/her signature 

TWI1TER:HeaIthyFLA 
FAG EBOOK:FLDepartnientofl-lealth 

YOUTLJBE: Hdoh - 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Good Sight Pharmacy, Inc. 
Case Number: 2013-00708 

MEMBERS: Gavin Meshad and MicheleWeizer 

DATE OF PCP: March 28; 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-17 i..s........u........................ •u• •u•u •u•t••• 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise filly advised in the premises, the panel finds that; 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 65.023(1 Xci Florida Statutes (201 11. by violating a rule of the Board of Pharmacy, through a 
violation of Rule 648 16-28.202(3'), Florida Administrative 

Probable Cause was not found in this case. 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

______________________________________________________ 

- Pknb 66Q5 
Chak, Probable Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



FLORIDA DEPARTh2NT 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Date of Complaint: Case Number 
CONSUMER SERVICES January 101 2013 PH 201 3-00708 

Subject: GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY, INC. 

5554 SW Street 

Coral Gables, FL 33134 

Source: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATION SERVICES UNIT- 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
2205 25104 Pharmacy Pharmacy February 18, 2013 

Period of Investigation: 

January 16- February 18, 2013 
Type of Report: 
FINAL 

Alleged Violation: § Possible violation ofss 465.016(1)(r), 465.O23(1)(c) F.S.; Rule 64B16- 
28.202(1 )(2)(3)(a)(b)(4)(a)(b)(5), 64B16-28.203(1 )(2)(3)(4)(5)(6), 64B16-28.1 081, F.A.C. : This investigation is predicated on the receipt of a complaint from the Florida Department of 
Health, INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES UNIT- MIAMI (ISU-MIAMI) received on January 101 2013 to the effect 
that GOOD SIGHT is no longer operating at the address of record and no Closure has been reported. 
There is now a different pharmacy operating at this address, Capitol Pharmacy Discount, causing the 
Investigator to be unable to determine if drugs were left in GOOD SIGHT. 
(Ex. 1) 

GOOD SIGHT was notified by mail on January 16, 2013, letter being mailed to the address of record and 
including the initiating document and a copy of the complaint. (Ex. 2) 

A check of the Florida Department of Health's licensure information reveals the GOOD SIGHT is licensed 
as a Pharmacy with status of Clear. 

Patient notification is not required because there is no patient involvement. 

GOOD SIGHT is not known to be represented by counsel at this time. 

GOOD SIGHT has not responded to the notification letter as of February 18, 2013. If a response is 
received it will be forwarded to the Prosecution Services Unit. 

Related Case: None 

Investigator/Date: Approved B /Date: 

. FEB 18 2013 

- Distribution: Legal/Consumer ServIces Unit ,z3D 

Page 1 

p) 
r—. 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT PH 2013- 00708 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER PAGE 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

Ill. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 3 

Summary of Records / Documents 3 

Interviews / Statements 3 

Statement of ISU-MIAMI (Source) 3 
Statement of GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY (Subject) 3 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1) Complaint Summary and attachments 4-9 

2) Copy of Notification letter 10 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT PH 2013-00708 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF RECORDS 

Exhibit 1 includes a copy of the May 23, 2012 Inspection Report documenting that GOOD SIGHT was not 
in operation at the address of record as of inspection date. It is noted that Capitol Pharmacy Discount was 
operational at this address. No pharmacy closure has been received and the Investigator was unable to 
determine if GOOD SIGHT left any drugs. Also included are licensure documents showing the listed 
PDM, Olusola Omotunde Jolaogun Ps 35040, dropped as of May 31,2011. 
(Ex. 1) 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENT OF ) 
No further information received from complainant. 

INTERVIEWISTATEMENT OF GOOD SIGHT PHARMACY(Subjecfi 

No response received from GOOD SIGHT to date. 

Address of Record 

5554 Sw 8th Street 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEAL 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nafion 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201216942 

GEORGE ADRIAZOLA, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: GEORGE ADRIAZOLA 
13282 NW 1 TERR 
MIAMI, FL 33182 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. Although the Respondent is not required to be 
present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 
4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850)-236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as 'timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m. ;therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

$Øard Executive Director 
MOARD OF PHARMACY 

Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 VOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: 

Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Floilda through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

State Surgeon General & Seaetary 

MEMORANDUM 
Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
Kristal Beharry, Assistant General Counsel 
Determination of Waiver 
DOH v. George Adriazola, RPT 

DOH Case Number 20 12-16942 

DATE: August 23, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. : George Adriazola, RPT 

Subject's Address of 13282 NW Terrace 
Record: Miami, FL 33182 

Enforcement Address: 13282 NW Terrace 
Miami, FL 33182 

Subject's License No: 

Licensure File No: 

Initial Licensure Date: 
Board Certification: 
Required to Appear: 
Current IPN/PRN Contract: 
Allegation(s): 

Prior Discipline: 
Probable Cause Panel: 

Department of Health/Consumer Services Unit 

Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Determination of Waiver 
Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint 
Exhibit B - Copy of Certified Mail Receipt 
Exhibit C — Affidavit of Diligent Search 
Exhibit D — Board Affidavit 

Florida Department of Health .sHealth.com 
Office of the General CounselS Prosecution Services Unft 

TWITrER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 

BOOK:FLDeparthientofHealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row — Suite 105 

YOIJTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: -4444 • FAX 1245-4683 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

TO: 
FROM: : 
SUBJECT 

39191 Rank: RPT 

38758 

8/24/2011 

None 

No 

None 

Count 1: Section 456.072(1)(c), F.S. (2012) 
Count 2: Section 456.072(1)(x), F.S. (2012) 

None 

March 28, 2013 
Meshad and Weizer 

Pro Se Subject's Attorney: 

Complainant/Address: 
Materials Submitted: 



Exhibit E — Clerk Affidavit 
Motion to Assess Costs 
Exhibit A — Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expended 
Exhibit 1 — Complaint Cost Summary 
Exhibit 2 — Itemized Cost by Complaint 
Supplemental Investigative Report 6/12/13 
PCP Memo 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1 - 2 

Disciplinary Guidelines: 
Count I: Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012): $3,000 fine and one (1) year 

probation up to Revocation 
Count II: Section 456.072(1)(x), Florida Statutes (2012): $1,000 fine up to Revocation 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: INFORMAL HEARING 

This is a two count Administrative Complaint alleging violations of Section 456.072(1)(c), 
Florida Statutes (2012), by being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of guilty or 
nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the 
practice of, or the ability to practice, pharmacy; and Section 456.072(1)(x), Florida Statutes 
(2012), by failing to report to the board, or the department if there is no board, in writing 
within 30 days after the licensee has been convicted or found guilty of, or entered a plea of 
nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction. 

On or about September 18, 2012, in the Circuit Court of the Eleventh Judicial Circuit in and for 
Miami-Dade County, Florida, Respondent entered a plea of guilty to one count of unlawful 
possession of a prescription drug with intent to sell, a third-degree felony in violation of 
Section 499.03, Florida Statutes. Respondent did not report his plea to the Board in writing 
within 30 days. 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE DEPARTMENT 

• Revocation 
CONSIDERATIONS SUPPORTING 

THE DEPARTMENT'S RECOMMENDATION 

. The recommendation is appropriate and within the guidelines 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16942 

GEORGE ADRIAZOLA, RPT, 

Respondent. 

________________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF WAIVER AND FOR 
FINAL ORDER AFTER A HEARING NOT INVOLVING 

DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final 

Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been determined 

and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore Petitioner states: 

1. An Administrative Complaint was filed against Respondent on March 

28, 2013. A copy of said Administrative Complaint is attached hereto as 

Petitioner's Exhibit A. 



2. Copies of the Administrative Complaint, Explanation of Rights form, 

and Election of Rights form were sent to Respondent via certified US mail on: 

April 5, 2013 (7196 9008 9111 8827 2533). Service on Respondent via certified 

mail was not successful. A copy of the certified mail receipt and envelope is 

attached as Petitioner's Exhibit B. 

3. Thereafter, Petitioner requested personal service on Respondent, which 

was completed on June 6, 2013. The affidavit of personal service is attached as 

Petitioner's Exhibit C. 

4. Rule 28-106.111(2), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

persons seeking a hearing on an agency decision 
which does or may determine their substantial interests 
shall file a petition for hearing with the agency within 
21 days of receipt of written notice of the decision. 

5. Rule 28.106.111(4), Florida Administrative Code, provides that: 

Any person who received written notice of an agency 
decision and who fails to file a written request for a 

hearing within 21 days waives the right to request a 

hearing on such matters. 

6. Respondent has not filed an Election of Rights form, or any other 

responsive pleading, with Petitioner or the Board of Pharmacy within the 

required twenty-one (21) day period of time. Copies of affidavits supporting the 

same are attached hereto as Petitioner's Exhibits D & E. 



7. Based upon the foregoing, Respondent has waived the right to 

dispute any materials facts contained within the Administrative Complaint. 

Therefore, there are no disputed issues of material fact to be resolved by the 

Board. 

8. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a copy of 

the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, establishing a 

prima fade case regarding the violations as set forth in the Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board find that 

Respondent has waived the right to dispute any materials facts contained within 

the Administrative Complaint and enter a Final Order imposing whatever 

discipline upon Respondent's license that the Board deems appropriate. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0078070 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 ext. 8218 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: Kristal_Beharry@doh.state.fl.us 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 
been provided by U.S. mail this day of 

, 2013, to: George Adriazola, 13282 NW 

Terrace, FL 33182. 

1<'. 
Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 





3. Respondent's address of record is 13282 Northwest 1 Terrace, 

Miami, Florida 33182. 

4. On or about September 18, 2012, in the Circuit Court of the 

Eleventh Judicial Circuit in and for -Dade County, Honda, in case 

number P12-004270, Respondent entered a plea of guilty to one count of 

unlawful possession of a prescription drug with intent to sell, a thir& 

degree felony in violation of Section 499.03, Aorida Statutes. 

5. Respondent failed to timely report, in writing, the plea 

described above in paragraph (4) to the Board of Pharmacy. ! 
6. PetItioner realieges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 

through five (5) as If fully set forth herein. 

7. Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob 

contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which 

relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, pharmacy constitutes 

grounds for disciplinary action. 

Department of Health v. George Mflazola, RYE 2 

Case Number 2012-16942 



8. Unlawful possession of a prescription drug with intent Is to sell 

is a crime that relates to the practice of pharmacy or to the ability to 

practice 6 
9. As set forth above, Respondent pled guilty th one count of 

unlawful possession of a prescription drug with intent to sell, a third degree 

felony, in violation of Section 499.03, Florida Statutes, In the Circuit Court 

In and for MiamkDade County, Florida. 

10. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by being convicted or found guilty 

of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob conteridere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or 

the ability to practice, pharmacy. 

COUNT I 
11. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 

through five (5) as If fully set forth herein. 

12. Section 456.072(1)(X), Florida Statutes (2012), provides 

that failing to report to the board, or the department if there Is no board, 

In writing within 30 days after the licensee has been convicted or found 

or Healthy. George Mituola, Rn 3 

Case Number 20U46942 



guilty of, or entered a plea of nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction, constitutes grounds for discipline. 

13. Respondent failed to timely report to the board, in writing, the 

plea described in paragraph four within thirty (30) days after entering the 

plea. 

14. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

456.072(1)(x), Florida Statutes (2012), by failing to report to the board, or 

the department if there is no board, in writing wIthin 30 days after the 

licensee has been convicted or found guilty of, or entered a plea of nob 

contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime In any 1 
WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

Department health V. George Mrtazcta, RPT 4 

Case Number 2012-16942 



-4' 

SIGNED this day of 44 a 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beha 
Assistant General Counsel 
DON Prosecution Services Unit 

HEALTH 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C65 

CLERK 
DEPIJTY CLERK Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 

en Florida Bar # 0078070 
2013 Telephone: (850) 245-4640 

Facsimile: (850) 

B 
PCP: 03/28/13 
PCP Members: Meshad & Weizer 

Deparunent of Health v. George Adrlazola, Rfl 
Case Number 2012-16942 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to• have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf If a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline Imposed. 

Depazflnt of Heath V. Geoige Mrtazola, Rfl 6 

Case Number 2012-16942 



7196 9008 911], 8827 2533 

Stip Pack 
Cassandra/Beharry 
Date Mailed 4/5/20 13 
201246942 

SENDER: 

REFERENCE: 
Adriazàla, George 

PS Form 3800 Janue 2005 
RETURN Postage 
RECEIPT 

Certified Fee SERVICE 
Return Receipt Fee 

Restricted Delivery 

Total Postage & Fees 

IISPS POSTMARK OR DATE 

• ipt for 
Certified Mair 

- No losnico Cavorago Piwideti 
Do Not U.e for 

EXHIBIT 



- - 

Engllett Cuttomeraecvlce USPS Mobile Register Sign lit 

Start!, usps.com or Track Packages 

Quick Tools Ship a Package Send Mafl Manage Your Mail Shop Business Solutions 

Track & Confirm 

You entered: 71969008911188272533 

returned to the aenderon May 18, 2013 at 5:03 pm in MIAMI, FL 33184 
because It was not claimed by the eddreseee. Additional infonnetion for this item is 
stored In Iles offline. 

You may request that the additional Information be retrieved from the archives, end 
that we send you an s-mali when this retrIeval is complete. Requests to retrIeve 
additional information are generally processed momentarily. 

I scull like to receive salilselion on th,s vequesi 

Restore 

Find Another Item 

your label (or receipt) number? 

Find 

LEGAL ON I.JSPSOOM ON ABOUTuSPaCOM OThER LISPS Sims 
Pnvacy Policy s Government Services t About usps Names Busineta Customer Gateway t 

Terms of use Buy Sismps & Shop i Newsroom t Poslal inspectors IA t Prini a Label With Postage Mel Service updates lrttpector General 
No FEAR Aol EEO Data ' Customer Service I Forms & Publicstans Postal Explorer t 

Delivering Soluilona to the Lest Mile t Cereers 
Site Index 

Copyrightt 2013 uops. l Rights Reserved. 

lgo/TraekConfuinAction.action 5/21/2013 



Mlssioà: 
To protect promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flodda through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Petitioner 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

vs 

GEORGE ADRIAZOLJA. RPT 
Case No. RPT 2012-16942 

Respondent 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on , Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve Administrative Complaint, Election of 
Rights and Stipulation and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

XAffiant made personal service on Respondent, or on some person at Respondent's usual place of abodeover the age 
of 15 residing there, on (date) . 

________Affiant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown 
in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the 
computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to frequent; 
(d) Division of Drivers Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); any others: 

AffianV V 
State Of Florida 
County Of - 
Before me, personally appeared ne\ c.e.. M e 3 whose identity is known to me by Fe r5e s t 

(type of idenufication) and who, acknowtedges that his/her signature appears above. 

of 

Type or Print Name 

Florida Department of Health 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance' Bureau of Enforcement 
8350 NW 52S Terrace, Suite 400' Doral, FL 33166-7709 
PHONE: (305) 470-5805 FAX: (305) 499-2090 

SUNDAY A. AOESINp, 
EE 838210 

)ires September 25,2016 
Bonded TroyFa, 

TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

Yol)TU8E: f]doh 

Sworn to Affiant before me this 

__________day 

of l 1 

,T 



Mission: 
To protect promote & improve the health 

of at people in Florida through Integrated 

state, ceunty & efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Annstrong, , FACS 
State Surgeon General & Seuern 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

I, ffi ' hereby certify in my official capacity as 

custodian for the Board of Pharmacy's licensure files that the Board of Pharmacy as of 

has no evidence of an Election of Rights form or other 

responsive pleading requesting a hearing prior to any agency action regarding CASE 

NAME: Georae Adriazola, R.PTa, CASE NUMBER: 201246942 which would 

affect the Subject's substantial interests or rights. 

7cusfodian of 
Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Before me, personally appeared //-I&kn , whose identity is 

knowntome •(type of identification) and who, under, 

oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed this day of 2013. 

Notary Public 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel- ProsecuVon SeMces Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchanls Row— Suite 105 

PHONE: 850)245-4444 • FAX 850t245-4683 

.Floridashealth.com 
TWITTER:HeaIThyFLA leattJ, 

YOUTtJBE: ffdoh 

— EXHIBIT 

I 



Rick Scott 
Minion: Governor 
To protect promote & improve the health 

__________ 

of all people in flmidathrvugh integrated John H. . MD, FACS 
stale, county & conununity efforts. rc 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Suaetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the NaUon 

AFFIDAVIT 

nol 6%4!7& c20 Deputy Clerk for the Department Clerk's Office, 

hereby my official capacity as custodian for the Department Clerk's records, that the 

Department Clerk's Office has not received an Election of Rights form or other responsive 

pleading, which requests a hearing prior to any Department action regarding Case Name: 

Georcie Adriazoip, RPT. Case . , which would affect the Respondent's 

substantial interests or rights. 

Custodian of 
Department Clerk's Office 

Before me, personally appeared CJ&i&t identity is known to me by 

personally known (type of identification) who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her 

signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this of 

___________________ 

2013. 

blic 

ANQELA BARTON res: PUBLIC. E OFR.QRIpA My Commission 
00922154 

EXPIRES 9/112013 
SOtloso THRU 1.MS-NOTARV. 

Florida D.partm.nt of Hs&th 
Office of the General Counsel Prnsacuthn Services Unft TWWFER:HeaJUiyFLA 

PHONE: . 

4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin C-65 Taflahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2555 Merthants Raw — Suite 105 YOU1tIBE: fldoh 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16942 

GEORGE ADRIAZOLA, RPT, 0 

/ 
MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH SECTION ) 
COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry of a 

Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the investigation 

and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 456.072(4), Florida 

Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Pharmacy 

will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary action and will 

enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed through 
final order, or citation, entered on or after July 1, 



2001, pursuant to this section or discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or after 
July 1, 2001, for a violation of any practice act, the 
board, or the department when there is not board, 
shall assess costs related to the investigation and 
prosecution of the case. Such costs related to the 
investigation and prosecution include, but are not 
limited , salaries and benefits of personnel, costs 
related to the time spent by the attorney and other 
personnel working on the case, and any other 
expenses incurred by the department for the case. 
The board, or the deoartment when there is no 
board, shall determine the amount of costs to be 
assessed after its consideration of an affidavit of 
itemized costs and any written obiections . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted in 

costs in the total amount of $2,364.07, based on the following itemized 

statement of costs: 

***** Cost to Date ***** 

Hours 
] 

Costs 

Complaint: 1 $82.35 
Investigation: $1,514.36 
Legal: 7.200 $765.75 

Compliance: 0.05 1.61 

Sub Total: 32.551 $2,364.07 
Expenses to 
Date: 

00 
.? 

Prior Amount:] 
I 

$0.00 
Total Costs to 
Date: 

,2,364.07 

2 





DATED this ai day of 

________________, 

2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry ) 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0078070 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 ext. 8218 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: Kristal_Beharry@doh.state.fl.us 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the ping Motion 

to Assess Costs has been provided by U.S. Mail this 

_________ 

day of 

__________________ 

2013, to: George Adriazola, 13282 NW 1st Terrace, 

Miami, FL 33182. 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SIIANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 2012-1 6942 (Department of Health v. GEORGE 
ADRIAZOLA, RPT) are TWO THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED SIXTY- 
FOUR DOLLARS AND SEVEN CENTS ($2,364.07). 

6) The costs for DOH case numbers 201 2-1 6942 (Department of Health 
v. GEORGE ADRIAZOLA, RPT) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost 
Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 2012-1 6942 
(Department of Health v. GEORGE ADRIAZOLA, RPT) are detailed in 

Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and 
receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 

I of2 



keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me of C , 2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is personally known to me. 

IOWAN IDA B. BURNETT 
Commission # EE 838342 
Expires September 25,2016 

___________ 

Name of Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201fl6942 

k'age I at I 

Subject's Name: ADRIAZOLA, GEORGE 

[ 

***** Cost to Date ***** 

I______________________ Hours 
[ 

Costs 

laint: 1.50 1 ion: 
[ 

23.80 1 
Legal: 7.20 .75 
Cornptianee: l $1.61 

[ 

Sub Total: 32.55] $2,364.07 

Expenses to Date: 
1 

Amount: OOi 
Total Costs to Date: 

I 

8/26/2013 



D
iv

is
io

na
l 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

rn
an

ce
 

M
Q

A
 

C
O

N
FI

D
E

 N
T

 11 
A

L
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

16
94

2 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/2
6/

20
13

 
Pa

ge
 I

 
of

2 

St
ai

f 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

St
af

f 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

IC
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 U

N
IT

 
I 

H
C

27
 

$3
2.

13
 

$1
.6

1 
13

 
13

7 
1P

G
R

A
D

E
S

 
S

ub
 T

ot
al

 
0.

05
 

$1
.6

1 
. 

I 
IC

O
N

S
IJ

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 iT
 

H
A

23
 

0.
60

 
$5

4.
90

 

H
A

23
 

0.
10

 
$5

4.
90

 

H
A

23
 

0.
80

 
$5

4.
90

 

$3
2.

94
 

$5
.4

9 

$4
3.

92
 

l/1
6/

20
L2

 
11

/2
0/

20
12

 

12
/0

4/
20

12
 

78
 

35
 

14
4 

IE
W

A
N

D
A

N
A

LY
S

IS
O

F
C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
T

E
LE

P
H

O
N

E
 C

A
LL

S
 

C
S

U
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

1.
50

 

IIN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 iT

 
$8

2.
35

 

12
09

 
2.

00
 

$6
1.

19
 

$1
22

.3
8 

11
/2

9/
20

12
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 iN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

M
12

09
 

1.
00

 
$6

1.
19

 
$6

1.
19

 
11

/2
9/

20
12

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

11
96

 
4.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$2
55

.9
2 

12
/0

5/
20

12
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

M
12

1 
I 

1.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

3.
98

 
12

/L
 /

20
12

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

M
L

2I
 L 

1.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

3.
98

 
12

/1
1/

20
12

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

L
T

IM
E

 

19
6 

.0
0 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
3.

98
 

2/
11

/2
01

2 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

L 
T

IM
E

 

19
6 

1.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

3.
98

 
12

/1
1/

20
12

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

M
12

8 
0.

60
 

$6
3.

98
 

$3
8.

39
 

12
/1

2/
20

12
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

19
6 

8.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$5

11
.8

4 
12

/1
2/

20
12

 
76

 
R

E
PO

R
T

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

JO
N

 

19
6 

1.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
$9

5.
97

 
06

/0
3/

20
13

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

L 
T

IM
E

 

M
11

96
 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
10

0 
SE

R
V

IC
E

 O
F 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

S,
 S

U
B

PO
E

N
A

S,
 N

O
T

iC
E

 T
O

 C
E

A
SE

 

M
II

96
 

0.
80

 
$6

3.
98

 
$5

1.
18

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

L
T

IM
E

 

M
1I

96
 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
10

0 
IC

E
T

O
C

E
A

SE
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

23
.8

0 
51

,5
14

.3
6 

06
/0

3/
20

13
 

06
/0

6/
20

13
 

06
/0

6/
20

 13
 

06
/1

2/
20

13
 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

 F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 



D
iv

is
io

n 
**

* 
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
 

A
L

 *
**

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

16
94

2 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/2
6/

20
13

 
P

ag
e 

2 
of

2 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

St
af

f R
at

e 
C

os
t 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
at

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

IP
R

O
S

E
C

U
 1

O
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

B
 

0.
60

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$6

3.
81

 
12

/0
7/

20
12

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

C
A

SE
FI

L
E

 
H

L
L

7O
B

 
0.

70
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$7
4.

45
 

12
/0

7/
20

12
 

46
 

L
E

G
A

L
 R

E
SE

A
R

C
H

 

O
B

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

12
/0

7/
20

12
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

C
A

L
L

S 
I-

IL
L

7O
B

 
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

0.
64

 
12

/1
2/

20
12

 
35

 
T

E
L

E
PH

O
N

E
C

A
L

L
S 

H
L

L
7O

B
 

1.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

27
.6

2 
12

/1
9/

20
12

 
78

 
IN

T
 

H
L

L
7O

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
12

/1
9/

20
12

 
26

 
PR

E
PA

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 M

E
M

O
R

A
N

D
U

M
 

H
L

L
70

B
 

1.
80

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

91
.4

3 
12

/2
7/

20
12

 
26

 
IS

E
M

E
M

O
R

A
N

D
U

M
 

H
L

L
9O

A
 

03
0 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

01
/0

3/
20

13
 

78
 

IT
IA

L
R

E
V

IE
W

A
N

D
A

N
A

L
Y

SI
SO

FC
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

H
L

L
9O

A
 

0.
70

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$7

4.
45

 
01

/1
6/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 

FI
L

L
9O

A
 

1.
00

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

06
.3

5 
01

/1
6/

20
13

 
28

 
'IT

 
O

A
 

0.
30

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$3

1.
91

 
04

/0
5/

20
13

 
90

 
PO

ST
 P

R
O

B
A

B
L

E
 C

A
U

SE
 P

R
O

C
E

SS
IN

G
 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

7.
20

 
$7

65
.7

5 

T
ot

al
 C

os
t 

$2
,3

64
.0

7 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- 

F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 U

S
E

 O
N

L
Y

 - 
ite

lT
liz

ed
co

st
 



io
na

l 
**

* 
C

O
 N

 F
 ID

E
 N

 T
I A

L
 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

\4
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

08
/2

6/
20

 1
3 

Pa
ge

 1
 
of

! 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 -
- 

ite
m

iz
ed

ex
pe

ns
e 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Miami Xl Date of Case: 12/03/2012 Case Number: RPT 2012-1 6942 
Subject: 
GEORGE ADRIAZOLA 
13282 NW ftTerr 
Miami, FL 33182 
(786) 246-4108 (C) 

Source: 
DOHICONSUMER ICES IJWOT 

Prefix: License #: Profession: 
2208 39191 Registered 

Pharmacy 
Technician 

Board: 
Pharmacy 

Report Date: 
06/12/13 

Period of Investigation: 05/24/13 — 06/12/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL - 1 

Alleged Violation: SEE FINAL REPORT 

Synopsis: This Supplemental Report is predicated upon receipt of a Supplemental request from CASSANDRA 
NICHOLSON, Assistant for General Counsel, KRISTAL BEHARRY from the Department of Health Prosecution 
Services Unit to hand-serve Administrative Complaint, Election of Rights and Stipulation to GEORGE 
ADRIAZOLA last known address, 13282 NW Terrace, 1 FL 33182. 

INVESTIGATOR : 
Ca) ;o 
C ) r 

r 
— rn ) 
.g- r 

On 06/06/13 at approximately 11:17 am, this Investigator presented to the last known physical address for 
GEORGE ADRIAZOLA, 13262 NW st Terrace, Miami, FL 33182 after reviewing Accurint Data and hand-served 
Administrative Complaint, which includes Settlement Agreement, Election of Rights and Stipulation to GEORGE 
ADRIAZOLA, RPT (Identity confirmed against ADRIAZOLA's Florida State drivers license). 

Exhibits(s): 
SI — Affidavit of Service or Diligent Search, (p. 2) 

Related Case(s): NONE 
-___Th 

Inve tigator/Dat June 12 2013 June 12..,1013 JUN 172013 

4 

Jenëice Mayers, list II ridad Rodriguez, Inv t ator upervisoPCH/MQA 

Distribution: HQ/ISU Page 1 



Misslofl: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in nda through integrated 

state, runty & efforts. & 
HEALTH 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Petitioner 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

vs 

GEORGE , RPT 
Case No. RPT 2012-16942 

Respondent 

COMES WOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on , Afflant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve Administrative Complaint, Election of 
Rights and Stipulation and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

XAffiant made personal service on Respondent, or on some person at Respondent's usual place of abode over the age 
of 15 residing there, on (date) . 

________Aftiant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown 
in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the 
computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to frequent; 
(d) Division of Drivers Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); any others: 

__________________________ 

Affianj 77 
State Of Florida 

County Of - 
ntct M whose identity is known to me by It 

(type of idenfification) and who, that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to Affiant before me this day of l 4 —k 

No Publi -State of Florida 

- -H 
Type or Print Names 

Florida Department of Health 
of Medical Quality ' Bureau of Enforcement 

8350 NW Terrace, Suite 400' Doral, FL 33166-7709 
PRONE: (305) 470-5805 'FAX: (305) 499-2090 

ldasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

BOOK:FLDepart.mentowiealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

Before me, personally appeared 

My 

SUNDAY A. ADESINA 
UriJbbIun 4 EE 838210 

üres September 25, 2016 
Bonded flw Iroy Fan 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Phannacy 

George Addazola, RFT 
Case Number: 2012-16942 

MEMBERS: Gavin Meshad and Michele Weizer 

DATE OF PCP: March 28, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-2 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise filly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section l, Florida Statutes (20121 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 1 PM 4 /i 
Chair, Probable Panel Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Miami Xl Date of Case: 12/03/2012 Case Number: RPT 2012-1 6942 

Subject: 
GEORGE ADRIAZOLA 
13282 NW 1 Terr 
Miami, FL 33182 
(786) 246-4108 (C) 

Source: 
DOH/CONSUMER SERVICES UNIT 

Prefix: 
2208 

License #: 
39191 

Profession: 
Registered 
Pharmacy 
Technician 

Board: 
Pharmacy 

Report Date: 
12/13/12 

Period of Investigation: 12/04/12 — 12/13/12 Type of Report: PRIORITY - 1 

Possible Violation of 35. 456.072 (1 )(c)(k)(x)(zXdd) The following acts shall constitute grounds for which the disciplinary actions specified in subsection (2) 
may be taken: Being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea...; Failing to perform any statutory or legal obligation placed upon...; Failing to report to 
the board, or the department if there is no board, in writing...; Being unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety to patients ...; Violating any provision 
of this chapter, the applicable practice act, or any rules...; F.S.; 465.016(1 )(d) 1., 2., (e)(f)(j)(m)(r) The following acts constitute grounds for denial of a license 
or disciplinary action, as specified in s. 456.072(2): Being unfit or incompetent to practice pharmacy by reason of: Habitual intoxication. The misuse or 
abuse of any medicinal drug appearing in any schedule set forth in chapter 693. violating chapter 499; 21 U.S.C. ss...; Having been convicted or found 
guilty, regardless of adjudication, in a court...; Making or filing a report or record which the licensee knows to be false, intentionally...; Being unable to 
practice pharmacy with reasonable skill...; Violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any...; 

Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of Case Summary and Initiating Documents (Exhibit #1), 
submitted by DOH/CONSUMER SERVICES UNIT. DOll/CONSUMER SERVICES UNIT stated that they received 
internally generated complaint stating GEORGE ADRIAZOLA was convicted of Possess Cont. Sub. w/o Presc. 
(S.499.03 (3), F.S.) in Miami-Dade County, FL. Court documents obtained from Miami-Dade County Clerk of 
Court stated ADRIAZOLA entered a guilty plea to the charge Prescr/New/Drug/Possess w/Intent to Sell/Deliver 
(5.499.03 (3), F.S.) and was adjudicated guilty on 09/18/12. This conviction resulted from ADRIAZOLA stealing 
lprazolam 2mg from his place of employment, CVS Pharmacy, located at 3695 West Flagler St., Miami, FL. 
Additionally, ADRIAZOLA was arrested for Possession of Marijuana (S. 893.13 (6) (b), F.S.) on 04/30/11 and 
07/27/11 in Miami-Dade County, FL. CCIS indicates adjudication was withheld on these charges; however Miami- 
Dade Clerk of Court was unable to produce disposition documents 

ADRIAZOLA was notified of the investigation by Subject Notification Letter, dated 12/04/12 (Exhibit #2) and was 
provided a copy of the Case Summary and Initiating Documents from (Exhibit #1). 

A search of the DON licensure database reveals GEORGE ADRIAZOLA has a clear and active 
Pharmacy Technician License, which will expire on 12/31/12. 

No patient(s) were identified, thus patient notification was not required. 

ADRIAZOLA is not represented by an attorney at this time. 

Although multiple attempts were done by this Investigator to contact GEORGE ADRIAZOLA, as of date of this 
Investigative Report ADRIAZOLA has not responded to the allegation'. 

Related Case(s): NONE 
' Received 

Approved By/Date: 

Jeneice Mayers, Investig Ion II Edward Thompson, Investigator 

SeMceS 

, 7 
tianager 

UUSJMUP' 
Distribution: HQ/ISU 1 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: RPT2O12-16942 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 

Interview of GEORGE MULERO, Miami MMI Investigator — (Witness) 3 

Interview of JULIANA MILLON, Attorney for the State Attorney's Office — (Witness) 3 

Interview-of JOSELYN MAYMI, Pharmacist — (Witness) 4 

Interview of HECTOR REGUERO, CVS Store Manager — (Witness) 4-5 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary and Attachments 6-25 

2. Copy of Subject Notification Letter, dated 12/04/12 26 

Page 2 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: RPT2O12-16942 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit 1: Contains Case summary and Attachment which contains the following documentation: 
Certified Court Documents 

Exhibit 2: Contains a copy of the Subject Notification Letter, dated 12/04/12 

INTERVIEW OF GEORGE MULEROI MIAMI MMI INVESTIGATOR — ) 
DON/MIAMI INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 
8350 NW Terrace, Ste 400 
Miami, FL 33166 
(305) 470-5894 (W) 

On 11/06/12, this Investigator interviewed Medical Malpractice Investigator GEORGE MULERO at 
the Miami ISU office. MULERO initially stated the following: On 11/29/12, he visited Miami-Dade 
Criminal Court Building for the purpose of obtaining Certified Criminal History/background relative to 
GEORGE ADRIAZOLA. MULERO also stated that the record reveals that ADRIAZOLA was 
arrested at his place of employment CVS Pharmacy 3695 West Flagler St, Miami, FL for committing 
Retail Theft of a medication known as ALPROZOLAN 2mg and also arrested on 04/30/11, as well as 
07/27/11 for Possession of Marijuana. MULERO insinuated to this Investigator that no Disposition 
was found relative to these charges and that he obtain all the Certified Copies of Arrest Records and 
Disposition for GEORGE ADEIAZOLA. 

INTERVIEW OF JULIANA MILLONI A1TORNEY FOR THE STATE A1TORNEY'S OFFICE — ) 
Employment Address: 
MIAMI-DADE STATE ATTORNEY'S OFFICE 
1350 N.W. Avenue 
Miami, FL 33136 
(305) 547-0100 (W) 

On 12/12/12, Medical Malpractice Investigator NEIL DOWNS contacted JULIANA MILLON to 
conduct an interview and also requested documentation from there state case. MILLON stated to I DOWNS that our office already received all of the CERTIFIED COURT DOCUMENTS and 
Disposition for GEORGE ADRIAZOLA and also stated to DOWNS that ADRIAZOLA plea guilty and 
was placed on probation for one year. 

Page 3 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

00K INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: RPT2O12-16942 

INTERVIEW OF JOSELYN MAVML PHARMACIST (LICENSE #47426) — ) 
Employment Address: 
CVS Pharmacy 
3695 West Flagler Street 
Miami, FL 33135 
(305) 643-9304 (W) 

On 12/11/12, this Investigator and Miami Medical Malpractice Investigator, SUNDAY ADESINA 
presented to CVS Pharmacy PH 20603 located at 3695 West Flagler Street, Miami, FL 33135 and 
conducted an interview with PDM, JOSELYN MAYMI. MAYMI stated the following: She was 
present the day RPT, GEORGE ADRIAZOLA was arrested. MAYMI stated that ADRIAZOLA was 
placing high orders on ALPROZOLAM 2mg and Loss Control Department conducted an audit on 
ALPROZOLAM 2mg between 09/11 — 02/12 and found out that 85 bottles of ALPROZOLAM 2MG 
was missing. MAYMI also stated that her Store Manager, HECTOR REGUERO confronted 
ADRIAZOLA on 02/20/12, because on the previous day ADRIAZOLA orderS bottles of 
ALPRAZOLAM and only one bottle of ALPROZOLAM 2mg was placed on the self. MAYMI further 
stated that ADRIAZOLA was taken to the back room of the pharmacy and admitted to her Store 
Manager, HECTOR REGUERO that he stole the 7 bottle of ALPRAZOLAM 2mg. ADRIAZOLA was 
later arrested for retail theft/possession of drugs without Prescription. 

INTERVIEW OF HECTOR REGUERO. CVS STORE MANAGER - ) 
Employment Address: 
CVS Pharmacy 
3695 West Flagler Street 
Miami, FL 33135 
(305) 643-9304 (W) 

On 12/11/12, this Investigator and Miami Medical Malpractice Investigator, SUNDAY ADESINA 
presented to CVS Pharmacy PH 20603 located at 3695 West Flagler Street, Miami, FL 33135 and 
conducted an interview with CVS Store Manager, HECTOR REGUERO. In summary, REGUERO 
stated to this Investigator that after an inventory was conducted between 09/11 — 02/12 by his 
Loss Prevention Department he found out that 85 bottles of ALPROZOLAM 2mg were missing and 
further review indicated that GEORGE ADRIAZOLA was placing high order on ALPROZOLAM 
2mg. REGUERO also stated that around 02/12 GEORGE ADRIAZOLA order S bottle of 
ALPROZOLAM 2mg, but only one bottle was placed on the self. REGUERO stated that on 
02/20/12 he asked GEORGE ADRIAZOLA what happen to the medication ALPROZOLAM 2mg 
that he order. REGUERO further stated that GEORGE ADRIAZOLA was taken to the back of the 

Page 4 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: RPT 2012-16942 

Pharmacy Department where he verbally admitted that he stole the medication ALPROZOLAM 
2mg. REGUERO stated that he contacted Miami-Dade Police Department and GEORGE 
ADRIAZOLA was arrested for retail theft/possession of drugs wlo Prescription. 

INVESTIGATOR : 
On 12/1 l2at approximately 11:00am, this Investigator and SUNDAY ADESINA, Miami Medical 
Malpractice Investigator presented to the last known physical address for GEORGE ADRIAZOLA, 
13282 NW I Terr, Miami, FL 33182 and 2110 SW i PL, Miami, FL 33185 per Accurint Data. 
Upon arrival of address 2110 SW PL, Miami, FL 33185 a man came out and stated that he is 
the owner of the house and no one by the name of ADRIAZOLA lived there. This Investigator also 
presented to 13282 NW 1 Terr, Miami, FL 33182 and no one was present, so I placed my 
Business Card in the mailbox. 

On 12/12/12, this Investigator called ADRIAZOLA at telephone number (786) 246-4108 number 
was disconnected. This Investigator also conducted an Accurint Search on ADRIAZOLA and the 
Finder Report listed ADRIAZOLA current address as 13282 NW 1 Terr, Miami, FL 33182, which 
this is the one listed in DOH database. In addition, this Investigator mailed a copy of the Subject 
Notification Letter and Attached Documents to the current address via US Mail (Exhibit #20, to the 
same address as the one listed in the DOH records. As of 12/1 3/1 2, ADRIAZOLA has not 
responded to the allegations after several attempts via US Mail. 

Page 5 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, prornote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida Through integrated 

John H. Annstrong, MD, EACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201218551 

SPEED II PHARMACY INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: SPEED II PHARMACY INC 
2900 W 12TH AVE STE 4 
HIALEAH, FL 33012 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. Although the Respondent is not required to be present, 
it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan 
Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

xecutive Director 
OF PHARMACY 

Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance .A 
4052 Bald Cypross Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



HZALTh 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To orotect promote & improve •the health 
of dIl Florida tlyouqb integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Secretary 

To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM: Matthew G. Witters, Assistant General Counsel a 
RE: Determination of Waiver 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Speed II Pharmacy, Inc. 

DOH Case Number 2012-18551 

DATE: August 28, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: Speed II Pharmacy, Inc. 

Subject's Address of 2900 West 12th Avenue 
Record: Suite 4 

Hiateah, FL 33012 

Enforcement Address: 2900 West 12th Avenue 
Suite 4 
Hialeah, FL 33012 

Subject's License No: 26049 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 19075 

Initial Licensure Date: 4/4/2012 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current PRN Contract: No 

Fiorida Department of Heaith ldasHeaith.com 
Office of the Generel CounselS Prosewton Services Unit TWi1TER:HeaIthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 FACEBOOK:FLDeparfrnentoftleal'th 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row- Suite 105 YOU1tJBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



Count I: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by 

violating Section 465.022(10), F.S. (2012), a permittee 

must notify the department, on a form approved by the 

board, within 10 days after any change in prescription 

department manager or consultant pharmacist of record, 

and/or by violating Section 465.022(11), F.S. (2012), a 

permittee must notify the department of the identity of 

prescription department manager within 10 days after 

employment 

Count IL Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating 

Rule 64B16-28.1081, F.A.C., which requires that any 

person who receives a community pharmacy permit 

pursuant to Section 465.018, F.S., and commences to 

operate such an establishment shall keep the prescription 

department of the establishment open for a minimum of 

forty (40) hours per week. 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: March 28, 2013 

Meshad & Weizer 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department Of Health/ISU Miami 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Motion for Determination of Waiver 

Exhibit A — Administrative Complaint 

Exhibit B — Copy of Certified Mail Receipt 

Exhibit C — Board Affidavit 

Exhibit D — Clerk Affidavit 

Motion to Assess Costs 

Florida Department of Health .com 
Office of The General Counsel• Services Unit TWIUER:HeaIthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way! Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 323g9-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row- Suite 105 YOIJTLJBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245.4684 



Exhibit A — Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expended 

Exhibit 1 — Complaint Cost Summary 

Exhibit 2 — Itemized cost by Complaint 

PCP Memorandum 

Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1 thru 6 

GUIDELINES: 
Count I: Fine based length of time from notifying Board, $500 per month up to $7 500. 
Count II: From a $500 fine and a twelve hour laws and rules course up to $2,000 fine and 
one year probation. 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: DETERMINATION OF WAIVER 
This is a two count Administrative Complaint which alleges that On or about November 19, 

2012 DE ceased being the Respondent's PDM. Respondent failed to notify the Department of 

the change of PDM and/or the identity of the PDM. 

Additionally, on or about December 11, 2012 a Department inspector found the Respondent to 

be closed during posted business hours. 

MGW/crl 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHeaith.com 
Office of the General CounselS Proseanion Services Unit lealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDeparUnentcfl-leaith 

Express mail address: 2585 Merthan6 Row• Suite 105 VOUTIJEE: fldoh 

P1-lONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 9 
v. CASE NO. 2012=18551 

Speed II Pharmacy, ., 
Respondent. 

MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF WAIVER AND FOR 
FINAL ORDER BY HEARING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED 

ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through counsel, moves the 

Board of Pharmacy to find that Respondent has waived herright to elect a 

method of disposition of the pending Administrative Complaint, to determine 

that no material facts are in dispute, to conduct a hearing not involving 

disputed issues of material fact, and to enter a Final Order. As grounds 

therefore, Petitioner states: 

1. An Administrative Complaint was filed against Respondent on 

March 28, 2013. A copy of said Administrative Complaint is attached hereto 

as Petitioner's Exhibit A. 



2. Copies of the Administrative Complaint, Explanation of Rights form, 

and Election of Rights forms were sent to Respondent, via certified US mail 

delivery, on or about April 18, 2013 Certified Mail Number 7196 9008 9111 

8826 3944. A signed green receipt card was returned. A copy of the cerdfied 

mail receipt is attached as Petitioner's Exhibit B. 

3. Respondent has not filed with either the Department of Health or 

the Board of Pharmacy, an Election of Rights form or other responsive 

pleading in this case within the twenty-one (21) day period to dispute the 

allegations contained in the Administrative Complaint. Copies of affidavits 

supporting the same are attached hereto as Petitioner's Exhibits C and D. 

4. Rule 28-106.111(2), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

• • • persons seeking a hearing on an agency 
decision which does or may determine their 
substantial interests shall file a petition for hearing 
with the agency within 21 days of receipt of written 
notice of the decision. 

5. Rule 28.106.111(4), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

any person who received written notice of an 
agency decision and who fails to file a written 
request for a hearing within 21 days waives the 
right to request a hearing on such matters. 



6. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this motion sent to 

her address of record, that a copy of the investigative file in this case shall be 

furnished to the Board to establish a prima facie case regarding the violations 

as set forth hi the Administrative Complaint. 

7. The Department has determined that there are no material facts 

in dispute and has concluded that Respondent has waived her right to elect 

the method of , 
8. The Department requests that this Motion and a hearing be 

placed on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of Pharmacy to be 

held on October 9, 2013 at the Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley 

Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408. 



WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board find that 

Respondent has waived her right to elect a method of resolution of this 

matter, find that there are no material facts in dispute, hold a hearing not 

involving material issues of disputed fact based on the information contained 

in the investigative file, find that Respondent violated Chapters 456 and 465, 

Florida Statutes, as alleged in the Administrative Complaint, impose discipline 

in accordance with the disciplinary guidelines, and enter a Order. 

Respectfully submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD 
General and Secretary of Health 

Matthew G. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 091245 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444, ext. 8172 

lIe: (850) 
Email: @doh.state.fi.us 



I HEREBY CERTIFY 

Motion for Determination 

InvoMng Disputed tssues 

to: Speed II Pharmacy, 

Florida 33012 this 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

of Waiver and for Final Order by Hearing Not 

of Niaterial Fact has been furnished 0 mail 

Inc., 2900 West th Avenue, Suite 4, Hialeah, 

dayof . 
witters 

Assistant General Counsel 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF 

iTIONER 

v. CASE NO. 2012-18551 

SPEED II PHARMACY, 

RESPONDENt 

ADMXNISTIUnvE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and flies this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Speed II Pharmacy, Inc., and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. PetItioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material, to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

permitted community pharmacy within the state of Florida, having been 

issued permit number PH 26049. 

t 
r 
C ' 



3. Respondent's address of record is 2900 W. th Avenue, Suite , 
4. On or about November 19, 2012, D.E., a pharmacist ceased 

being the prescription department manager (PDM) of record the 

Respondent. 

5. Pharmacy permittees are required to have a PDM of record to 

ensure the pharmacy's compliance with the laws and rules related to the 

practice of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of prescription drugs. 

6. From on or about November 19, 2012, on or about 

December 18, 2012, Respondent did not notify the Department of a 

change of PDM of record and/or failed to notify the Department of the 

Identity of the PDM of record. 

7. on or about December 11, 2012, a Department inspector 

attempted to conduct and inspection of the Respondent at 2900 W. th 

Avenue, Suite 4, l-Ilaleah, Florida 33012. 

8. On or about December 11, 2012, the Department's inspector 

found the Respondent's prescription, department to be closed during 

posted operational hours. 

DOH v. Speed U Pharmacy . . 2 

Case No. 2012-18551 
AC — m. Hours, No RPh 



.COUNT.ON.E. 
9. PetitIoner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 

through eight (8) as if fufly set forth herein. 

10. Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 

permittee who has violated any of the requirements of Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes or any of the rules of the Board of 1 
11. Section 465.022(10), Florida Statutes (2012), provIdes that a 

permittee must notify the department, on a form approved by the board, 

within 10 days after any change In prescription department manager or 

consultant pharmacist of record. 

12. Section 465.022(11), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that a 

permittee must notify the department of the identity of the prescription 

department manager within 10 days after employment. 

13. As set forth above, from on or about November 19, 2013, to on 

or about December 18, 2012, Respondent did not notify the Department of 

DOH v. Speed U Pharmacy 3 

Case No. 2012-18551 
AC— m. Hours, No RPh 



a change of PDM of record and/or failed to notify the Department of the 

14. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section .022(10), 

Florida Statutes (2012), a permittee must notify the department, on a form 

approved by the board, within 10 days after any thange In prescription 

department manager or consultant pharmacist of record, and/or by 

violating Section 465.022(11), FlorIda Statutes (2012), a perrnittee must 

notify the department of the identity. of the prescription department 

manager within 10 days after employment. 

cotTrTwo 

15. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 

through eight (8) as If fully set forth herein. 

16. Section 465.023(1)(c), florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 

permittee who has violated any of the requirements of Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy. 

DON v. Speed I Pharmacy 4 

Case No. 2012-18551 
AC — Hours, No RPh 





WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

enter...a.n ord.er...imposing..o.ne or more of th e..EJl.ow ng..,.penalties 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restilction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 2t day of , 
JOHN I-I. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

Matthew G. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 

ILED Fit Bar No. 0091245 
Florida Department of Health 

cLERK jt,.ngel Sandefl Office of the General Counsel 
DATE MAR 2 8 2013 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4640 
FacsImile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: matthew_wltters@dohstate.fl.us 

PCP: S—92-l3 
PCP Members: 
DOI1 v. Speed II Phamiacy 6 

Case No. 2012-18551 ,s,NoRPh 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

requestwhearlngtobe conducted 
in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to 
be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to 
present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses 
and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or 
her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), FlorIda Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplInary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DOH v. Speed U Pharmacy 7 

Case No. 2012-18551 
AC — m. Hours, No RPh 



TO: 

7196 9008 9111 8826 3944 

SENDER: Ciiur,s 
REFERENCE: io 
PS Form 3800, January 2005 

RETURN 
RECEIPT 
SERVICE 

uspas 
Receipt for 

Certified Mar 
No Insumnco Coverage Provided 
Do Not Use for lnflon'sl ll 

HLALEAH FL 33012 

3811, 2005 ic Return R 

Postage 

Certified Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 

Restricted Delivery 

______________ 

Totat Postage & Fees 

SPEED I PHARMACY 

2900 W TH AVE 

STE 4 
HIALEAH FL 33012 

POSTMARK CA DATE 

-13 

2.AItCWNurnb 

1ff flu! 1ff 

7196 9008 911,1 8826 3944 

3. ServIce Type CERTtFIED MAILTM 

8. Date of 

4. Restricted Delivery? (Extrs Fee) 
1. Article Addressed to: 

SPEED II PHARMACY 
2900 W AVE 
STE 4 



TO: 

7196 9008 9111 8826 3944 

SENDER: Cktns 
REFERENCE: 3 '(-Lp RxcJc 
PS Form 3600. January 2005 

RETURN 
RECEIPT 
SERVICE 

Return Receipt Fee 

Restricted Delivery 

Total Postage & Fees 

tJsps. 
Receipt for 

Certified Mair 
No lance Coverage Provided 
Do Nat lies tor lntemaseraj 

SPEED II PHARMACY 
2900 W TH AVE 
STE 4 
HIALEAH FL 33012 

HIALEAH FL 33012 

-J 

I 

H 

Postage 

Certified Fee 

POSTMARK OR DATE -is 

2. Article Number 

iø 
?196 9008 9111 3944 

, by 

COMRL ETE THIS SECTION ON DELIVERY lir 'ncrI.z!ll' 

3. Service Type CERTIFIED 

4. RestrIcted Delivery? (Extra Fee) 
I, Article Addressed to: 

SPEED H PHARMACY 
2900 W TH AVE 
STE 4 

i, 



Mission: 
To protect promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 

slate, & 
noflcia 
HEALTH 

John H. Armstrong, , FACS 
Slate Surgeon Geneal & Seaetary 

Vision: To be the Hailthiest State in the MaSon 

I, hereby certify in my official capadty as 

custodian for the Board of Pharmacy, licensure files that the Board of Pharmacy 

has no evidence of an Election of Rights form or 

other responsive pleading requesting a hearing prior to any agency action 

regarding SPEED II , ., CASE NUMBER , which 

would affect the Subject's substantial interests or rights. 

7 Custodian of Records 
Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Before me, personally appeared whose identity 

is known to me e rcCDnaii a 
—3 

_(type of identification) and who, under, 

oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Floutda Department of Health 
Offire of the General Counsel • Preseculion Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress . Bin C-65 TaVahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mat address: 2585 Merthants Row — Suite105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 650/245-4683 

.FiorldasHeelth.com 

FACEBOOK:FLDeparbnentolHealO, 
YOLJTUBE: fldoh 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

Sworn to and subscribed this 13 day of 

GMGUMY 

EXPIRES: May26, 201S 
Boosd live Ht*Eq PXIlc 

2013. 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

oF all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county mmunIty efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

AFFIDAVIT 

7 Deputy Cerk for the Department 

Clerk's Office, hereby certify in my official capacity as custodian for the 

Department Clerk's records, that the Department Clerk's Office has not received 

an Election of Rights form or other responsive pleading, which requests a 

hearing prior to any Department action regarding SPEED Ti PHARMACY, INC. 

CASE NUMBER , which would affect the Respondent's substantiS 

interests or rights 

Record 
Department Clerk's Office 

0 

Before me, personally appeared - 

known to me by personally known (type of identification) 

whose identity is 

and who, under oath, 

acknowledges that his/her signature.appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before 

2013. 

me this 6 day of - 

My Commission Expires: 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsels Prosecubon Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 85012454683 

Notary Public 

a' 

*41 If 

I, 

LAWANDA M BELL 
MY COMMISSION EE1$7051 

398-0153 

EXPIRES May 09. 2016 
FtaldaNglwyS.t.tari 

lth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFt.A 

FACE BOOK: F L ) e pa uns n Nea lth 

YOUTUBE: lldoh 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 9 
v. CASE NO. 2012-18551 

Speed II Pharmacy, mc, 

Respondent. 

/ 
MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH SECTION ) 
COMES NOW, the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry of a 

Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the investigation 

and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 456.072(4), 

Florida Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of 

Pharmacy will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary 

action and will enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 



In addition to any other disdpline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or after 
July 1, 2001, pursuant to this section or discipline 
imposed through final order, or citation, entered 
on or after July 1, 2001, for a violation of any 
practice act, the board, or the department when 
there is not board, shall assess costs related to the 
investigation and prosecution of the case. Such 
costs related to the investiaation and Drosecution 
include, but are not limited to, salaries and 
benefits of personnel, costs related to the time 
spent by the attorney and other personnel working 
on the case, and any other expenses incurred by 
the department for the case. The board, or the 
department when there is no board, shall 
determine the amount of costs to be assessed 
after its consideration of an affidavit of itemized 
costs and any written obiections . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted in 

costs in the total amount of $1,085.43 based on the following itemized 

statement of costs: 

***** Cost to Date 
I 

Hours 
I 

Costs 

Jcompiaint: 0.40] 
I 

1 
investigation: 12.30] 

I 
1 

Legal: 2.60] 
I 

1 
Compliance: o.ooj $0.00 

Sub Total: 15.30 $1,085.43 

Expenses to 
Date: 00 

Prior Amount: 
I 

l 
Costs to 

$1,085.43 

2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $808.91 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of the 

costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests that the 

Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based upon its 

consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any timely-filed 

written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and 

assess costs in the amount of $808.91 as supported by competent, 

substantial evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any other 

discipline imposed by the Board and is in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. 

3 



WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the Board 

of Pharmacy enter a Rnal Order assessing costs against the Respondent 

in the amount of $808.91. 

DATED this 2t day of 

, 
2013. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 091245 
Telephone: (850) 245-1111, ext. 8172 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: Matthew_Witters@doh.state.fl.us 

4 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

above and foregoing Motion to Assess Cost has been provided by . 
mail this day of 

_______, 

2013, to: Speed II Pharmacy, mc, 2900 

West th Avenue, Suite 4, Hialeah, Florida 33012. 

Matthew G. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 

5 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number 2012-18551 (Department of Health v. SPEED II 

PHARMACY, INC.) are ONE THOUSAND EIGHTY-FIVE DOLLARS 
AND FORTY-THREE CENTS ($1,085.43). 

6) The costs for DOH case numbers 201 2-1 8551 (Department of Health 
v. SPEED II PHARMACY, INC.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost 
Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 2012-1 8551 
(Department of Health v. SPEED II PHARMACY, INC.) are detailed in 
Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and 
receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 

'C 
'U 

I of2 



keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 

______________, 

2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is personally known to me. 

Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Corn plaint Number: 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: SPEED Ii PHARMACY INC 

L ***** Cost to Date ***** 

[ 1 Hours Costs int: 0.40 $21.96] 

Investigation: 
[ 12.30] 

Legal: 
1 1 

2.60 fl $276.52] 

Compliance: 0.00 
********** ********** 

Sub Total: 15.30 $1,085.43 

to Date: $0.00] 

ior AmouEtt: l 

m 

'U 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IRMOOTJMETRAKJCSDETL.ASp 5/13/2013 



D
iv

is
io

n 
ol

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

M
Q

A
 

C
 O

N
F 

ID
E

 N
T

 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 C

os
t 

by
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

12
18

55
1 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 U
SE

 O
N

L
Y

 -
- 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
05

/1
3/

20
13

 
Pa

ge
 1

 
of

2 

St
af

f 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

St
af

f R
at

e 
C

os
t 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
at

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

IC
O

N
SU

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

U
N

IT
 

I 

H
A

 1
36

 
0.

40
 

$5
4.

90
 

$2
1.

96
 

12
/2

0/
20

12
 

78
 

IN
IT

IA
L

 R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
SI

S 
O

F 
C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

0.
40

 
$2

1.
96

 

IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

U
N

IT
 

. 
I 

11
 

2.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

27
.9

6 
12

/2
7/

20
12

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

M
12

11
 

2.
30

 
$5

3.
98

 
$1

47
.1

5 
01

/0
3/

20
13

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

L
 T

IM
E

 
M

12
1 

1 
2.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
27

.9
6 

01
/0

4/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

1 
1.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
3.

98
 

01
/1

5/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

11
 

1.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
59

5.
97

 
01

/1
6/

20
13

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

M
12

l1
 

2.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

27
.9

6 
01

/1
8/

20
13

 
. 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
JN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
M

12
l 

1 
1.

50
 

$6
3.

98
 

$9
5.

97
 

01
/2

8/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

PO
R

T
 P

R
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

12
.3

0 
$7

86
.9

5 

IP
R

O
SE

C
U

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
1C

E
S 

U
N

iT
 

I 
I 

F1
L

L
9O

B
 

0.
60

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$6

3.
81

 
02

/1
3/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 
H

L
L

9O
B

 
0.

60
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$6
3.

81
 

02
/1

3/
20

13
 

28
 

PR
E

PA
R

E
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
E

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 
O

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
02

/1
8/

20
13

 
28

 
PR

E
PA

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

H
L

L
9O

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
02

/1
8/

20
13

 
89

 
PR

O
B

A
B

L
E

 C
A

U
SE

 P
R

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

H
L

L
9O

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
03

/2
6/

20
13

 
89

 
PR

O
B

A
B

L
E

 C
A

U
SE

 P
R

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

O
B

 
0.

10
 

51
06

.3
5 

SI
 0

64
 

03
/2

8/
20

13
 

63
 

PR
E

SE
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 O

F 
C

A
SE

S 
T

O
 P

R
O

B
A

B
L

E
 C

A
U

SE
 

O
B

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

03
/2

8/
20

13
 

79
 

ST
IP

U
L

A
T

IO
N

 
O

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
03

/2
9/

20
13

 
79

 
ST

IP
U

L
A

T
IO

N
 

H
L

L
9O

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
04

/0
4/

20
13

 
90

 
PO

ST
 P

R
O

B
A

B
L

E
 C

A
U

SE
 P

R
O

C
E

SS
IN

G
 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

2.
60

 
$2

76
.5

2 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 



D
iv

is
io

n 
o!

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

uo
lil

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
05

/1
3/

20
13

 
Pa

ge
 2

 o
f 2

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
--

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 

M
O

A
 

C
O

N
 F

 D
 E 

N
T

II
A

L
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

18
55

1 



**
* 

C
 0

 N
 F

 I
D

 E
 N

 T
 I

A
 L

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

tv
t c

II?
,A

 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 E

xp
en

se
 b

y 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
la

in
t 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

05
/1

3/
20

13
 

Pa
ge

 l
of

I 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 
St

af
f C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Su
bT

ot
al

 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

Fl
or

id
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 U
SE

 O
N

L
Y

 - 
ite

m
iz

ed
ex

pe
ns

e 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Speed I Pharmacy, Inc. 
Case Number: 2012-18551 

MEMBERS: Gavin Meshad and Michele Weizer 

DATE OF PCP: March 28, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-6 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise filly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section ). Florida Statutes; 

Section 465.023(l)(cl, Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rule 64B16-28.l081, Florida 
Administrative 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

L&P5 
Chair, Probable CausOanel Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Miami XI Date of Case:12/18/12 Case Number PH 2012-18551 

Subject: SPEED II PHARMACY INC Source: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTM 
2900W TH AVENUE STE 4 
HIALEAH,FL 33012 
786-310-7845 

Prefix:2205 License#:26049 Profession: Board: Report Date:O1/29/13 
Pharmacy 

Period of lnvestigation:12/27/12-01/29/13 Type of Report: Final 

Alleged Violation: Possible Violation of S.S.456.072 (1)(k)(dd), 465.016 (r), 465.023(1)(c), F.S., and Rules 
64B16-28.102(4), ,1081, 64B16-28.109, F.A.C. Failure to maintain proper Pharmacy 
establishment, Failure to perform legal obligation. 
Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon the receipt of a Case Summary and Initiating Documents 
from Department of Health Pharmacy Inspector CHANIRA MALDONADO-CANATE. On 12/10/2012 during 
a routine pharmacy inspection of SPEED II PHARMACY INC (Schedule II & III Community Pharmacy # 
26049 located at 2900W 12th Aye, Suite 4 in Hialeah) revealed a pharmacist was not on duty at this 
pharmacy which was closed during posted hours, did not meet 40 hour requirement, and was deemed 
unsafe on account of unlicensed staff with access to medications in an unlocked pharmacy department. PS 
# 17484 was the PDM of record until 11/27/2012. 

SPEED II PHARMACY INC was notified of the investigation by letter, dated 12/27/12 (Exhibit #2) and was 
provided a copy of the case summary and attachments from (Exhibit #1). 

A search of the DOH licensure database reveals that SPEED II PHARMACY INC is a licensed pharmacy 
with a clear and active status. 

There is no patient identify in this case, thus patient notification was not required. 

SPEED II PHARMACY INC is not represented by. an attorney at the time of this report. 

SPEED II PHARMACY INC denied all the allegations in a statement (Exhibit #6), received by this 
investigator on 01/22/13 

Related Case(s): None 

3 

Sunday 
Medical Malpractice Investigator Investigator Supervisor 

Distribution: HQ/ISU Page 1 

ived atjye 
LJAN 0 Z013 

DO ;41M C A 

lahassee HO 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORi PH-201218551 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 

Interview of Pharmacy inspector CHANIRA MELDONADO-CANATE —Source 3 

Statement of SPEED II PHARMACY INC Lic # (26049) -Subject 4 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary and attachments from initiating documents 5-8 

2. Copy of Subject Notification letter, dated 12/27/12 9 

3. Copy of Florida Department of state Division of corporation listing 
DE LATORREGUIDO 10-28 

4. Copy of picture taken by this investigator on 01/3/13 during a re-inspection visit 29-31 

5. Copy of e- mail correspondence between SPEED I PHARMACY INC Owner and this 
investigator 32 

6. Copy of SPEED II PHARMACY INC statement 33-60 

*EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE 
SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(1O)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORi PH-201218551 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

EXHIBIT#1 Case Summary and attachments from initiating documents 

EXHIBIT#2 Copy of Subject Notification letter, dated 12/27/12 

EXHIBIT#3 Copy of Florida Department of state Division of corporation listing DE LA TORRE GUIDO 
as the owner of the Pharmacy 

EXHIBIT#4 Copy of pictures taken by this investigator on 01/3/13 during a re-inspection visit, the 
picture revealed a closed pharmacy and the notice that was placed on the entrance for customers 
notification on closing status and period 
EXHIBIT#5 Copy of e- mail correspondence between SPEED II PHARMACY INC owner and this 
investigator on 01/04/13 

EXHIBIT#6 Copy of SPEED II PHARMACY INC statement received on 01/22/13 by this investigator 

INTERVIEW OF PHARMACY INSPECTOR MALDONADO-CANATE SOURCE 
Employment: 
8359 NW ND Terrace, 
Doral, FL 33166. 
305-470-5800 

On 12/31/12 this investigator interviewed Pharmacy Inspector CHANIRA MALDONADO-CANATE at 
Miami ISU office located at 8359 NW ND Terrace, Doral FL 33166. Inspector CHANIRA 
MALDONADO-CANATE stated that on 12/10/12 she attempted to perform a routine inspection at 
SPEED II PAHRMACY located at 2900W 12TH Avenue. Hialeah, Fl 33012 when she observed that 
the prescription department was not locked and there was no pharmacist present during her visit. She 
also stated that two employees were observed in the pharmacy prescription area without any 
identification and the pharmacy was also closed during posted operation hours. Inspector CHANIRA 
MALDONADO-CANATE stated that there was no PDM of record at the time of inspection. The record 
revealed that the last PDM was taken off the record on 11/27/12 and the pharmacy had not updated 
the new POM with the board. 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPOk, PH-201 218551 

STATEMENT OF SPEED U PHARMACY INC LIC #126049) -SUBJECT 
Address: 
2900W 1H AVENUE STE 4 
HIALEAH, FL 33012 
756-310-7845 

A written statement was received from the owner of SPEED II PHARMACY INC (Exhbit#6) on 
01/22/1 3. On December 10, 2012 a routine inspection of SPEED II PHARMACY INC was hot done 
since the pharmacy manager was not present. The employee present was GLADYS SANTOS 
(front clerk) and VIVIAN MARTINEZ Pharmacist Intern (PS/24934).According to the Pharmacist 
Intern (PS/24934) the inspector came to conduct the annual Inspection, the prescription 
department door was closed but not locked because the lock was broken. The lock was fixed next 
day. The drugs inside the prescription department was only generic, no controls (Attach a copy of 
the drugs) Since April 5, 2012 SPEED II PHARMACY INC received the Florida Board of Pharmacy, 
DEA License on October 15, 2012 and the Medicare Part 0 Insurance November 15, 2012. This 
pharmacy has never dispensed any prescription. The PDM Pharmacy Manager was canceled 
without the knowledge of GUIDO DE LA TORRE. 

Page 4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


-. - 

III CONFIDENTiAL 

i 

ü) 
= 

) 0 

0 

CD 

0 
3.- 

C 

0 
C 

±3 
0) I 

0 
a 
0) 

(pa 

i 
r) 
CD 

S 
a. 
CD 
—S 

NJ 

NJ 0 
NJ 

C) 
-o 
= 
(D 
= 
i:B. 

C) 
CD 

0) 

0) 

ID 
B 
CD 

C- 
CD ci 

C 
CD 

NJ 0 
N) 

0 

) 
0 
(pa 





.1 

I 

I 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html




Rick Scott : Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

r - - 

of all people In Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nalion 

TO: 

MEMORANDUM 

Mark Whitten, Executive Director; Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: : Thomas 3. Morton, Assistant General Counsel 

Motion for Determination of Waiver 1 

SUBJECT: DOH v. Ryan Daniel Rodriguez, R.P.T. 
DOH Case Numbers 2012-13596 and 2012-13608 

DATE: Aucust 29, 2013 
Enclosed you wifl find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 8-9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. : Ryan Daniel Rodriguez, R.P.T. 

Subject's Address of 11179 Peerless Lane 
Record: Jacksonville, FL 32246 

(904) 945-9059 Telephone 

Enforcement Address: 11179 Peerless Lane 
Jacksonville, FL 32246 

Subject's License No: 5867 Rank: RPT 

Licensure File No: 6742 

Initial Licensure Date: 11/4/2009 

Board Certification: None 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2011-2012) 
Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012) 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: DeAnn M. Mullins and Debra B. Glass 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Fiorida Department of Heaith .com 
Office of the General Counsel' Proseculion Services Unit TWITFER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65 • Tallahassee, FL 323993256 ,entofHealth 
Express mail address: 2555 Merchants Row — Suite 105 YOUTUBE: ffdoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX /2454662 



DOH v. Ryan Daniel Rodriguez, R.P.T. 
DOH Case Numbers 2012-13596 and 2012-13608 
Page Two 

Department Of 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Determination of Waiver 

Administrative Complaint 
Copy of Returned Envelope 
Affidavit of Service 
Affidavits of Non-Receipt - Board Office 
Affidavits of -Receipt - Agency Clerk's Office 

PCP Memo 
DOH Case Number 2012-13596 
Supplemental Investigative Report dated 10-8-12, 

With Exhibit S-i 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1-8 
DOH Case Number 2012-13608 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits i-2 
Other Required Documents 

plinary Guidelines: 

COUNT I - Section 465.016(1)(e). Florida Statutes : 
Minimum - $2,500 fine and one (1) year probation. 
Maximum - Revocation 

COUNT II - Section 456.072W(ct Florida Statutes : 
Minimum — One (1) year suspension, two (2) year probation and $5,000 fine 
Maximum - Revocation 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: DETERMINATION OF WAIVER 
This is a two count Administrative Complaint alleging Respondent violated the following 

Florida Statutes. The first count alleges Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida 

Statutes (2011-2012), when he stole and possessed hydrocodone and/or aiprazolam from 
lgreens, which he did not obtain lawfully or pursuant to a valid prescription or order, in 

violation of Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (20i2). The second count alleges 
Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), when he plead guilty to 
unlawful possession of a controlled substance, a third degree felony. 

On February 14, 2013, an Order of Emergency Suspension of License ("ESO") was filed, 
suspending Respondent's license to practice as a registered pharmacy technician in the State 

of Florida. On February 19, 2013, a copy of the ESO was mailed to Respondent at his address 

of record in Jacksonville, Florida, via certified mail. This package was delivered to Respondent 

on February 23, 2013. 



DOH v. Ryan Daniel Rodriguez, R.P.TO 

DOH Case Numbers 2012-13596 and 2012-13608 
Page Three 

On February 28, 2013, an Administrative Complaint was filed against Respondent's 

license. On March 1, 2013, a letter enclosing the Administrative Complaint, Election of Rights, 

Explanation of Rights and Voluntary Relinquishment of License form was sent to Respondent 

at his address of record, via certified mail. The package was returned as "Unclaimed." 
On May 14, 2013, a letter enclosing the Administrative Complaint, Election of Rights, 

Explanation of Rights and Voluntary Relinquishment of License form were personally served on 

Respondent's mother, Nadine Rodriguez, at Respondent's address of record and residence. 

Respondent has not filed, with either the Department or the Board of Pharmacy, an 

Election of Rights form or other responsive pleading in this case within the twenty-one (21) 
day period to dispute the allegations contained in the Administrative Complaint. 

• RECOMMENDATION OF THE DEPARTMENT 
• Revocation. 
• Costs. 

CONSIDERATIONS SUPPORTING 
THE DEPARTMENT'S RECOMMENDATION 

• Respondent has only been practicing since 11/4/09. 
• The recommendation is consistent with the disciplinary guidelines. 

TJM/tgc 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

CASE NOS 201243596 & 
2012-13608 

RYAN D RODRIGUEZ, g 
Respondent. 

MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF WAIVER AND FOR 
FINAL ORDER BY HEARING NOT INVOLVING 

DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through counsel, moves the 

Board of Pharmacy to find that Respondent has waived his right to elect a 

method of disposition of the pending Administrative Complaint, to determine 

that no material facts are in dispute, to conduct a hearing not involving 

disputed issues of material fact, and to enter a Final Order. As grounds 

therefore, Petitioner states: 

1. An Administrative Complaint was filed against Respondent on 

February 28, 2013. A copy of said Administrative Complaint is attached 

hereto as Petitioner's Exhibit A. 



2. Copies of the Administrative Complaint, Explanation of Rights, 

Election of Rights, and Voluntary Relinquishment of Ucense forms were sent 

to Respondent, via certified US. mail delivery, on March 1, 2013, (artide 

number 7196 9008 9111 8828 2020), to 11179 Peedess Lane, Jacksonville, 

Florida 32246, Respondent's address of record. The documents were 

returned by the U.S. Postal Service as "UNCLAIMED." A copy of said 

returned envelope is attached hereto as Petitioner's Exhibit B. 

3. Copies of the Administrative Complaint, Explanation of Rights, 

Election of Rights, and Voluntary Relinquishment of License forms were 

hand-served to Respondent's mother, Nadine Rodriguez, on May 14, 2013, at 

11179 Peerless Lane, Jacksonville, Florida 32246, Respondent's address of 

record and residence. A copy of said Affidavit of Service is attached hereto 

as Petitioner's Exhibit C. 

4. Respondent has not flied, with either the Department of Health 

or the Board of Pharmacy, an Election of Rights form or other responsive 

pleading in this case to dispute the allegations contained in the 

Administrative Complaint. Copies of affidavits supporting thç same are 

attached hereto as Petitioner's Exhibits D and E. 

Page 2 of 5 

DOll Case Numbers: 2012-13595 & 2012-13508 



5. Rule 28-106111(2), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

persons seeking a hearing on an agency 
decision which does or may determine their 
substantiag kiterests shaH file a petition for hearing 
with the agency within 21 days of receipt of written 
notice of the decision. 

6. Rule 28106111(4), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

any person who receives written notice of an 

agency decision and who fails to file a written 
request for a hearing within 21 days waives the 
right to request a hearing on such matters. 

7. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this Motion sent to 

both his address of record that a copy of the investigative file in this case 

shall be furnished to. the Board of Pharmacy to establish a prima facie case 

regarding the violations as set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

8. The Petitioner has determined that there are no material facts in 

dispute and has concluded that Respondent has waived his right to elect the 

method of resolution. 

DOH v. Ryan D. Rodriguez, RPh. 
Page 3 of 5 

DOH Case Numbers: 2012-13596 & 2012-13608 



9. The Petitioner requests that this Motion and a hearing be placed 

on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of Pharmacy to be held on 

October 8-9, 2013, in Panama City, Florida. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy find that Respondent has waived his right to elect a method of 

resolution of this matter, find that there are no material facts dispute, hold 

a hearing not material issues of disputed fact based on the 

information contained in the investigative file, find that Respondent violated 

Chapters 456, 465, and 893, Florida Statutes, as alleged in the Administrative 

Complaint, impose discipline in accordance with the disciplinary guidelines, 

and enter a Final Order. 

Respectfully submitted this 251 day of A , 2013. 

Morton 
Assistant General Counsel 
Florida Bar Number 013771 
Florida Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(P) 850-245-4444 
(F) 850-245-4684 
(E) Thomas_morton@doh.state.fl.us 

Page 4 of 5 
DOH v. Ryan 0. Rodnguez, R.Ph. 
DOH Case Numbers: 2012-13596 & 2012-13608 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has 

been furnished via .S. Certified Mail on this day of 

2013 to Ryan ft Rodriguez, ., 11179 Peerless Lane, , Florida 

32246. 

TJ M/tgc 

Certified Article Number 

71% 1008 1327 5].30 

SENDERS RECORD 

Thomas 
Assistant General Counsel 

DCH v. Ryan D. Rodriguez, R.Pti. 
Page 5 of 5 

DOH Case Numbers: 2012-13596 & 2012-13608 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

v. CASE NOS. 2012-13596 
—20-12-1-3608—----— 

RYAN DANIEL RODRIGUEZ, R.P.lc, . 
______________I 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through undersigned 

counsel, files this Administrative Complaint before the Board of Pharmacy 

against Respondent, Ryan Daniel Rodriguez, R.P.T., and in support thereof 

alleges: 

U Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

registered pharmacy technician within the state of Florida, having been 

issued registration number RPT 5867. 

EXHIBIT 

CID 



3. Respondent's address of record is 11179 Peerless Lane, 

Jacksonville, Florida 32246. 

4. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was 

registered to practice as a pharmacy technician in the State of Florida, 

pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

5. On multiple occasions between on or about January 2012, and 

on or about September 2012, Respondent stole hydrocodone and/or 

alprazolam from Waigreen's while working as a pharmacy technician. 

6. Hydrocodone is commonly prescribed to treat pain. According 

to Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes, hydrocodone is a Schedule II 

controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a currently 

accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United 

States. Abuse of hydrocodone may lead to severe psychological or physical 

dependence. 

• 7. Alprazolam is prescribed to treat anxiety. According to Section 

893.03(4), Florida Statutes, aiprazolam is a Schedule IV controlled 

substance that has a low potential for abuse relative to the substances in 

Schedule III and has a currently accepted medical use in treatment in the 

1 v. Darud iguez. REt 2 1 Case Numbes 201213596 & 2012-13608 



United States. Abuse of aiprazolam may lead to limited physical or 

psychological dependence relative to the substances in Schedule III. 

8. On or about September 10, 2012, Respondent was an-ested 

and charged with trafficking in opium or any derivative and theft of a 

controlled substance, in connection with his theft while employed as a 

pharmacy technician with , 
9. On or about October 24, , in the Circuit Court of the 

Fourth Judicial Circuit in and for Duvat County, Florida, in case number 

2012-CF-008994, Respondent entered a plea of guilty to unlawful 

possession of a controlled substance, a third dEgree felony, in violation of 

Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2012). 

10. Section 465.014(8), Florida Statutes (2011-2012), subjects a 

registered pharmacy technician to discipline for committing an act that 

constitutes grounds for discipline as set forth in Section 456.072(1), or 

Chapter 465, florida Statutes (2011-2012). 

COUNT ONE 

11. Petitioner realleges and incorporates by reference the 

allegations in paragraphs one (1) through ten (10) as if fully set forth 

herein. 

DOH v. Ryan Radrlguez, RPT 3 
DON Numbers 2012-13596 & 2012-13698 



12. Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2011-2012), subjects a 

licensee to discipline for violating the provisions of Chapter 8g3, Florida 

Statutes (2011-2012). 

13. Section .13(6)(a), Florida Statutes provides, in 

part: 

It is unlawful for any person to be in actual or constructive 
possession of a controlled substance unless such controlled 
substance was (awfully obtained from a practitioner or pursuant 
to a valid prescription or order of a practitioner while acting in 
the course of his or her professional practice or to be in actual 
or constructive possession of a controlled substance except as 
otherwise authorized by this chapter. 

14. Respondent stole, and possessed, hydrocodone and/or 

aiprazolam from lgreen's, which he did not obtain lawfully or pursuant 

to a valid prescription or order. 

15. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2011-2012), when he stole, and 

possessed, hydrocodone and/or lprazotam from Waigreen's, which he did 

not obtain lawfully or pursuant to a valid prescription or order, in violation 

of Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2012). 

COP! v. Ryan DaniS Rcddguez, Rfl 4 
DOK Case Numbers 2012-13596 & 201213608 



COUNT TWO 

16. Petitioner realleges and incorporates by reference the 

allegations in paragraphs one (1) through ten (10) as if fully set forth 

herein. 

17. Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), subjects a 

licensee to discipline for entering a plea of guilty to a crime which relates 

to the practice, or the ability to practice, a licensee's profession. 

18. Respondent pled guilty to unlawful possession of a controlled 

substance, which stemmed from his theft of hydrocodone and/or 

aiprazolam while employed as a pharmacy technician with Walgreen's, and 

which relates to Respondent's practice, or ability to practice, as a pharmacy 

tech ni clan 

19. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

456.072(lXc), Florida Statutes, (2012), when he pled guilty to unlawful 

possession of a controlled substance. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's registration, 

restriction of pracdce, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a 

DCII v. Rya' Rodriguez, RPT 

DCII Case Numbers 20t2 12596 & 2D12-13608 
5 



reprimand, placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, 

refund of fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other 

relief that the Board deems appropriate. 

thk 

______ 

2©23C 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

Morton 

FILED Msistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 

QE3PRTMENT OF HEALTh 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar # 13771 
Phone - (850) 245-4444 x 8212 
Fax - (850) 245-4684 

PCP: February 28, 2013 
PCP Members: DeAnn M. Mullins, BPharm and Debra B. Glass, BPharm 

oll v. Ryan Danid Rfl I Case Numbers 2012-135% & 2012-L36O$ 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the rightS to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf If a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent placed on notice that Petitioner has 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DON v. Ryan kodilguez, RPT 7 
DON Case Numbers 2012-13596 & 2012-13608 



a 

SE
A

L
 

U
 

—
 

T
h9L 

¶108 
9111 

&
&

E
&

 
2Q

20 
P

rosecution 
U

nit 
B

ald C
ypress W

ay, B
in #C

65 
T

htlàhasseé, F
lorida 

. 

o M
O

V
E

D
, LE

F
T

 N
O

 A
D

D
R

E
S

S
 

W
IL 

U
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

IN
G

 O
R

D
E

R
 E

X
P

IR
E

D
 

fl A
fltM

P
T

E
D

-N
O

T
K

N
O

W
N

 
I*U

N
C

LA
IM

E
D

 
U

 
R

E
F

U
S

E
D

 

°4N
E

D
T

O
 S

E
N

D
E

R
 

U
 N

O
 S

U
C

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

O
 N

O
 S

U
C

H
 N

U
M

B
E

R
 

o IN
S

U
F

F
IC

IE
N

T
 A

D
D

R
E

S
S

 

- 
- 

,., 
-C

. ,c. 

R
yan D

. R
odriguez, R

.P
.T

. 
11179 P

eerless Lane 

4 

H
: 

2. 
A

rtIcle N
um

ber 

C
C

(V
F

. 
o 

. 

r 
n 

L 

,- 

C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
 T

H
IS

 S
E

C
T

{O
N

 
O

N
 D

E
LIV

E
R

Y
 

A
 

R
eceived by (P

lease P
rint C

lem
ly) 

ft 
D

ate O
T

D
eliV

eIy 

D
. 

Is delivery address dIfferent Irorn Item
 1? 

0 Y
es 

II Y
E

S
. euler defivery ed*ess below

: 
N

o 

Jacksonville, F
lorida 

32246 
. 

•: 
n... 

r 
4 

7196 
9008 

91.11 
8828 

2020 
X

 
D

A
ddreeseol 

'as 

3• 
—

 
cc 

C
 

f 
. 

w
 c 

3. 
S

eM
oe T

ype 
C

E
R

T
IF

IE
D

 M
A

ILT
M

 
E

 
llvery?(E

xtiaF
ee) 

flves 

'2 

L.. 
T

i M
orton, 3-1-13, R

odrIguez 12-13596 &
 12-13608, A

C
, E

O
R

, E
xpO

R
, V

R
 

P
S

 F
orm

 3811, January 2005 
D

om
estIc R

eturn R
eceipt 

-r 
; 

—
 



Minion: 
To piotect. piomote & bnpiove the health 
of all people In Florida thmugh mtegrated 
statL county & community efforb. 

nJcI. 
Governor 

John H. *nnstrong, MD, FACS - 

State Suigeon General & Secretaty 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

Department of Health 
• Petitioner 

vs . 

Ryan D. Rodriguez. RPT 
Respondent 

Case No. 201213608 
201213596 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on 05/14/13 , Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve X Administrative 
Complaint and related papers; 

_____ 

Order compelling examination(s); Subpoena(s); 

_________Final 

order; 

_______Notice 

to cease and desiét; 

______ 

ESO/ERO and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

______Affithnt 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for 
Respondent shown in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all oftidal addresses for Respondent shown 
in his licensing records on the computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last 

to frequent; (d) Division of Drivers Licenses; and Ce) Utilities (electric, cable, 

State Of Florida 
County Of Duval 

Before me, personally appeared — 
personal knowledge (type 

appears above. 

Stephen Kayser 
of identification) 

whose identity is 
and who, acknowledges that 

known to me by 
his/her signature 

Florida Depaitnent of Health 
DMalon of IS Quality Assurance' Bureau of Etement 
1912 Hamlibn Street, Unit 104' Jadcsenvtlie, FL 3fl10 
PHONE: 904)351-Eon' FAX 904/381-6050 

wwwSloddasH.aith.cotn 
I1ThftKSthyFU 

EXHIBIT 

____PAGE 

- 

_________ 

YOtmJBE: fldoh 

Vision: To be the Health iest.State In Ihe Natlen 

X Affiant made personal service on Respondents mother NADINE RODRIGUEZ at their address of 
record 11179 Peerless Lane, , FL 32246 

Swo to 

No ary 

or 

Public-State 

aff e b iant before me this 

of Flonda 

20 13. 

Type or Print Name 

My Commission Expires 

I 

EXHIBIT L I 

14% PAUL D. KLOKP . A 194782 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of afl people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest Slate in the 

, hereby certify in my official capacity as 

custodian for the Board of Pharmacy, licensure files that the Board of Pharmacy 

as of , has no evidence of an Election of Rights form or 

other responsive pleading requesting a hearing prior to any agency action 

regarding Ryan D. , Case Numbers 201243596 and , which would affect the Subject's substantial interests or rights. 

Cust6dian of Records 
Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Before me, personally appeared tiNrcrken whose identity 

is known to me 
I- C 

of identification) and who, under, 

oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed this 

A 1k 
MYCOMMISSION#EE97897 

EXPIRES: May 26, 2015 
Bonded Thru 

2013. 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel • Proseojtjon Services Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-3256 

Express mefi address: 2585 Meichants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: 650/245-4444- FAX 850/245-4662 

.com 
T lt ER: Healthy FLA 

FACEBOOK:FtDepartientolHealth 
YOUTIJBE: ffdoh 

' (flark 

Li 

EXHIBIT 
1 



Mission: 
To protect promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through Integrated 
state, county & efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Slate Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State In the 

AFFIDAVIT 

U 
Clerk's Office, hereby certify in my official capacity 

Department Clerk's records, that the Department Clerk's Office has not received 

an Election of Rights form or other responsive pleading, which requests a 

hearing prior to any Department action regarding Ryan D. Rodriauez, R.P.T.; 

Case Numbers 2012-13596 and , which would affect the 

Florida Department of Health 
of the General Counsel• Prosecution Services Unit 

4052 Way. Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3256 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4662 

Custodiabj of Record 

me this day 

HEA1YH 

Deputy Clerk for the Department 

as custodian for the 

Respondent's substantial interests or rights 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF (Th 

Department Agency Clerk's Office 

Before me, personally appeared 

personally known to me or known to me 

identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges 

appears above. 

Swor to and subscribed before . 
identity is 

(type of 

that his/her signature 

My Commission Expires: 

of 

/2a,t. 
Notary 

ANGELA 8ARTON 
NOTARY 

COMMISSION #00922154 
EXPIRES /2013 

fllDWTHRu 14$S.Nqyjfin 

EXHIBIT aD www.Florldasflealth.com 
TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 

PA C E BOOK : F L De pa lea ith 

VOUTLJBE: fldoh 



Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 
DOH v. Ryan D. Rodriguez, RPT 
DOll Case Number 2012-13608 & 2012-13596 

Debra B. Glass, BPharm, and DeAnn Mullins, BPharm 

DATE OF PCP: February 28, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A4(TJM) 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed 

the complete investigative recommendations of the Department, arid any 

information submitted by the Subject, and being otherwise fully advised in the 

premises, the panel finds that: 

X Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Count I: Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (201 1-2012), in violation of 
Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2012) 

Count II: Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012) 

____ 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

____ 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

____ 

Case requires expert review 

____ 

Case needs further investigation 

TO: 

FROW E 

MEMORANDUM OF FINDING OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

____ 

Other 

robable Cause Panel Date 
Board of Pharmacy 

3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner 

CASE 0 
2012-13608 

RYAN DANIEL RODRIGUEZ, R.PQTO, . 
/ 

MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION ) 

The Department of Health, by and through counsel, moves the Board 

of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order assessing costs against Respondent 

for the investigation and prosecution of these cases in accordance with 

Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes (2012). As grounds therefore, the 

Petitioner states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Pharmacy 

will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary actions and will 

enter a Final Order. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes (2012), states, in pertinent 

part, as follows: 



In addition to any other discipline imposed through final order, 
or citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001, under this section 
or discipline imposed through final order, or citation, entered 
on or after July 1, 2001, for a violation of any practice act, the 
board, or the department when there is no board, shall assess 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of the case. 
The costs related to the investigation and prosecution include, 
but are not limited to, salaries and benefits of personnel, costs 
related to the time spent by the attorney and other personnel 
working on the case, and any other expenses incurred by the 
department for the case. The board, or the department when 
there is no board, shall determine the amount of costs to be 
assessed after its consideration of an affidavit of itemized costs 
and any written objections thereto.,,. 

3. As evidenced in the attached affidavits (Exhibits A and B), the 

investigation and prosecution of these cases has resulted in costs in the 

total amount of $2,661.05, based on the following itemized statement of 

costs: 

a. Total costs for Complaints $248.63 
b. Total costs for Investigations $1,474.33 
c. Total costs for Legal $933.15 
d. Total costs for Compliance $4.94 
e. Total costs for expenses $0.00 

4. The attached affidavit reflects the Department's costs for 

attorney time in these cases as $933.15 (Exhibit C). The cost of obtaining 

an affidavit from an outside attorney will be greater than $933.15. 

Therefore, the Department is not seeking costs for attorney time in these 

cases. 

2 



5. Should Respondent file written objections to the assessment of 

costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, specifying the 

grounds for the objections and the specific elements of the costs to which 

objections are made, Petitioner requests that the Board determine the 

amount of costs to be assessed based upon its consideration of the 

affidavits attached as Exhibits A and B, and any timely-filed written . 
6. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and assess 

costs in the amount of $1,727.90 as supported by competent, substantial 

evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any other discipline 

imposed by the Board and is in accordance with Section 456.072(4), 

Fidrida Statutes (2012). 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against Respondent in the 

amount of $1,727.90. 

3 





AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTYOF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., dentists, nurses: 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 

Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks 001-Vs costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of 1 DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 

case number 2012-13596 (Department of Health v. Ryan D. 

Rodriguez, R.P.T.) are ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED NINETY- 
THREE DOLLARS AND SIXTEEN CENTS ($1,593.16). 

6) The costs for DOH case number 201 2-1 3596 (Dep&tment of Health v. 

Ryan D. Rodriguez, R.P.T.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost 
Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for 1 case number 2012-13596 
(Department of Health v. Ryan D. Rodriguez, R.P.T.) are detailed in 

Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and 

receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 

following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 

keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g.. investigators 

1 12 : S IT 



and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this______ day of 
:nown to me. 

¼SLL 

2 of2 

by 

44 

Shane 

Notary Signature 

Name of Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201213596 

Subject's Name: 

Page 1 of 1 

EXHIBIT 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IRMOOTTMETRAK/CSDETL.ASP 8/29/2013. 

RODRIGUEZ. RYAN DANIEL 

I 

***** Cost to Date 

Hours JJ Costs 

Corn plaint: 1.00 $57.62j 

Investigation: 16.60 

5.00 $518.36] 

liance: 0.00] 1 
Isub Total: $1,593.16] 

lExpenses to Date: 1 I 

Prior Amount: 
I 

. so.ooj 

Total Costs to Date: 
I 

$1,593.16 



D
ivision ol 

C
O

N
 FID

 E
N

T
JA

L
 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

T
im

e T
racking System

 
tvt 

Item
ized C

ost by C
om

plaint 
C

om
plaint 

201213596 

R
eport D

ate 
08/29/2013 

Page 
1 of 2 

Staff C
ode 

A
ctivity H

ours 
Stall R

ate 
C

ost 
A

ctivity D
ate 

A
ctivity C

ode 
A

ctivity D
escription 

- 

IC
O

N
SU

M
E

R
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S U
N

IT
 

. 
I 

IO
7 

1.00 
$57.62 

$57.62 
09/13/2012 

78 
IN

IT
IA

L
 R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

SIS O
F C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 

Sub T
otal 

1.00 
$57.62 

• 

IIN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S U
N

IT
 

I 
I 

0.50 
$61.19 

$30.60 
09/17/2012 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
1191 

1.30 
$61.19 

$79.55 
09/17/2012 

58 
T

R
A

V
E

L
T

IM
E

 
191 

0.80 
$6L

19 
$48.95 

09/17/2012 
76 

R
E

PO
R

T
 PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

1 
0.30 

$61.19 
$18.36 

09/18/2012 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

m
 

191 
-50 

$61.19 
$30.60 

09/18/2012 
76 IO

N
 

1191 
0.30 

$61.19 
$18.36 

09/19/2012 
76 

R
E

PO
R

T
PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

191 
0.30 

$61.19 
$18.36 

09/19/2012 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

191 
0.30 

$61.19 
$18.36 

09/20/2012 
76 

R
E

PO
R

T
PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

1191 
,30 

$61.19 
$18.36 

09/20/20 12 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

I 
0.20 

$61.19 
$12.24 

09/2112012 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

I 
0.40 

$61.19 
$24.48 

09/24/2012 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

1191 
0.70 

$61.19 
$42.83 

09/25/2012 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

191 
0.80 

$61.19 
$48.95 

09/25/2012 
76 

R
E

PO
R

T
 PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

1 
0.40 

$61.19 
$24.48 

09/25/2012 
76 

R
E

PO
R

T
 PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

191 
3.00 

$61.19 
$183.57 

09/26/2012 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

1 
0.70 

$61.19 
$42.83 

09/26/2012 
76 

R
E

PO
R

T
 PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

191 
0.90 

$61.19 
$55.07 

09/27/2012 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

191 
1.20 

$61.19 
$73.43 

09/27/2012 
76 

R
E

PO
R

T
 PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

191 
9.90 

$61.19 
$55.07 

09/28/2012 
76 

R
E

PO
R

T
 PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

I 
0.70 

$61.19 
$42.83 

09/28/2012 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

I 
0.90 

$61.19 
$55.07 

10/08/2012 
76 

R
E

PO
R

T
 PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

JI91 
0.30 

$61.19 
$18.36 

10/25/2012 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

1191 
- 

0.40 
$61.19 

$2448 
10/31/2012 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
188 

0.50 
$63.98 

$31.99 
05/20/2013 

6 
SU

PPL
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

Florida D
epartm

ent of H
ealth 

F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 U
SE

 O
N

L
Y

 - 
- 

item
izedeost 



D
ivision at 

*** C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L *** 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

kvt 
T

im
e T

racking System
 

__________ 

Item
ized C

ost by C
om

plaint 
C

om
plaint 

201213596 

R
eport D

ate 
08/29/2013 

Page 2 of 2 

Stall C
ode 

A
ctivity flours 

Staff hate 
C

ost 
A

ctivity D
ate 

A
ctivity C

ode 
A

ctivity D
escription 

S
ub T

otal 
16.60 

$1,017.18 
. 

IPR
O

SE
C

U
T

IO
N

 SE
R

V
IC

E
S U

N
IT

 
I 

H
L

L
94A

 
0.10 

$102.41 
$10.24 

09/18/2012 
37 

T
FE

R
 

H
L

L
94A

 
0.10 

$102.41 
$10.24 

09/18/2012 
36 

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
R

 R
E

V
ISIO

N
 O

F T
FE

R
 

O
B

 
0.40 

$102.41 
$40.96 

09/25/20 12 
78 

IN
IT

IA
L R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

SIS O
F C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 
O

B
 

2.20 
$102.41 

$225.30 
10/04/2012 

78 
IN

IT
IA

L R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
LY

S
IS

 O
F

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

O
B

 
0.60 

$102.41 
$61.45 

10/05/2012 
78 

IN
IT

IA
L R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

LY
S

IS
 O

F C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

O
B

 
0.50 

$106.35 
$53.18 

10/16/2012 
64 

LE
G

A
L A

D
V

IC
E

/D
ISC

U
SSIO

N
 - B

O
A

R
D

 O
F

F
IC

E
,D

E
P

T
 ST

A
FF O

R
 A

T
T

Y
 G

E
N

 O
F

F
: 

H
LL7O

B
 

0.80 
$106.35 

$85.08 
02/20/2013 

28 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

H
L

L
7O

B
 

0.30 
$106.35 

$31.91 
08/27/2013 

91 
B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 

Sub T
otal 

5.00 
$518.36 

T
otal C

ost 
$1,593.16 

F
londa D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
—

 F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 

item
izedeost 



*** C
O

N
FID

E
N

T
IA

L
 *** 

M
edicol Q

uality M
surance 

T
im

e T
racking System

 

k 
Item

ized E
xpense by C

om
plaint 

C
om

plaint 

R
eport D

ate: 
08/29/2013 

Page 
1 of 

I 

- 
E

xpense 
E

xpense 
E

xpense 

ll C
ode 

D
ate 

A
m

ount 
C

ode 
E

xpense C
ode D

escription 

SubT
otal 

T
otal E

xpenses 

Ftorida D
epartm

ent of H
ealth 

- F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 U
SE

 O
N

L
Y

 - 
iternizedexpense 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

CASE 0 2012-13596 
2012-13608 

RYAN DANIEL RODRIGUEZ, 09 
Respondent. 

____________I 

MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION ) 

The Department of Health, by and through counsel, moves the Board 

of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order assessing costs against Respondent 

for the investigation and prosecution of these cases in accordance with 

Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes (2012). As grounds therefore, the 

Petitioner states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Pharmacy 

will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary actions and will 

enter a Final Order. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes (2012), states, in pertinent 

part, as follows: 



In addition to any other discipline imposed through final order, 
or citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001, under this section 
or discipline imposed through final order, or citation, entered 
on or after July 1, 2001, for a violation of any practice act, the 
board, or the department when there is no board, shall assess 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of the case. 
The costs related to the Thvestigation and prosecution include, 
but are not limited to, salaries and benefits of personnel, costs 
related to the time spent by the attorney and other personnel 
working on the case, and any other expenses incurred by the 
department for the case. The board, or the department when 
there is no board, shall determine the amount of costs to be 

assessed after its consideration of an affidavit of itemized costs 
and any written objections thereto.... 

3. As evidenced in the attached affidavits (Exhibits A and B), the 

investigation and prosecution of these cases has resulted in costs in the 

total amount of $2,661.05, based on the following itemized statement of 

costs: 

a. Total costs for Complaints $248.63 
b. Total costs for Investigations $1,474.33 
c. Total costs for Legal $933.15 
d. Total costs for Compliance $4.94 
e. Total costs for expenses $0.00 - 

4. The attached affidavit reflects the Department's costs for 

attorney time in these cases as $933.15 (Exhibit C). The cost of obtaining 

an affidavit from an outside attorney will be greater than $933.15. 

Therefore, the Department is not seeking costs for attorney time in these 

cases. 

2 



5. Should Respondent file written objections to the assessment of 

costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, specifying the 

grounds for the objections and the specific elements of the costs to which 

objections are made, Petitioner requests that the Board determine the 

amount of costs to be assessed based upon its consideration of the 

affidavits attached as Exhibits A and B, and any timely-filed written 

6. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and assess 

costs in the amount of $1,727.90 as supported by competent, substantial 

evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any other discipline 

imposed by the Board and is in accordance with Section 456.072(4), 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against Respondent in the 

amount of $1,727.90. 

3 



DATED this 251 t day of . 2013. 

Respectfully submitted, 

C 
Thomas 3. (&ieIton 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar # 0013771 
(850) 245-1111 Phone 
(850) 245-4684 FAX 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Amended Motion to Assess Costs has been provided to Respondent, Ryan 

Daniel Rodriguez, R.P.T., at 11179 Peerless Lane, Jacksonville, Florida 

32246, by U.S. Certified Mail this 2)1 day of 

, 2013. 

13 M/tgc 

Certified Article Number 
r.ia.aa 7196 

SENDERS RECORD 

Morton 
Assistant General Counsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costh 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number 2012-13608 (Department of Health v. Ryan D. 
Rodriguez, R.P.T.) are ONE THOUSAND NINETY-NINE DOLLARS 
AND EIGHTY CENTS ($1,099.80). 

6) The costs for DOH case number 201 2-1 3608 (Department of Health v. 

Ryan D. Rodriguez, R.P.T.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost 
Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case number 2012-1 3608 
(Department of Health v. Ryan D. Rodriguez, R.P.T.) are detailed in 

Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and 
receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined' by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 
keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 

EXHIBIT 

I of 2 



and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State Of Florida 
County of Leon 

2 of2 

day of by Sworn to and subscribed before me this_______ 
Shane Walters, known to me. 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201213608 

Subject's Name: 

Page 1 of 1 

EXHIBIT 

IvIOOTIM.ETRAKJCSDETL.ASP 8/29/2013 

RODRIGUEZ, RYAN DANIEL 
*4.*** Cost to Date 

Hours Costs : 
1 

3.40 lj 
investigation: 

[ 7.5011 $457.15] 

Legal: 4.201 $446.70 

liance: o.isJ $4.94 

I 

ISub Total: 
Expenses to Date: $0.00 

IPrior Amount: $0.00 

ITotal Costs to Date: 
II 

$1,099.80 



01 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssu,ance 

M
Q

A
 

R
eport D

ate 
08/29/20 13 

O
8 

0.10 
$3133 

$133 
02/14/2013 

H
C

27 
005 

$32.13 
$1.61 

02/28/2013 

S
ub T

otal 
0.15 

54.94 

$57.62 
$57.62 

09/13/2012 
$57.62 

$34.57 
10/17/2012 

$54.90 
$32.94 

11/01/2012 
$54.90 

$65.88 
12/06/2012 

$54.90 
$109.80 

12/12/2012 

***C
O

N
FJD

E
N

T
IA

L
*** 

T
im

e T
racking System

 
Item

ized C
ost by C

om
plaint 

C
om

plaint 
201213608 

119 
R

E
V

IE
W

IN
G

 FO
/C

IT
A

T
IO

N
S &

 T
E

R
M

 IN
PU

T
 

138 
C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 D
E

L
E

T
IO

N
S/C

O
R

R
E

C
T

IO
N

S/U
PD

A
T

E
S 

IN
IT

IA
L

 R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
SIS O

F C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
SE

 FIL
E

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 FIL

E
 

IN
IT

IA
L

 R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
SIS O

F C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
F D

E
SK

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 SY

N
O

PSIS 
77 

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
F D

E
SK

 IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 SY

N
O

PSIS 

IIN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S U
N

IT
 

I 

$63.98 
02/20/2013 

$63.98 
02/25/2013 

$31.99 
02/26/2013 

$95.97 
05/13/2013 

$63.98 
$63.98 

05/14/2013 

100 
SE

R
V

IC
E

 O
F A

D
M

IN
IST

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

S, 
SU

B
PO

E
N

A
S, N

O
T

IC
E

 T
O

 C
E

A
SE

 
6 

SU
PPL

E
M

E
N

T
A

L
 IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
6 

SU
PPL

E
M

E
N

T
A

L
 IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
100 

SE
R

V
IC

E
 O

F A
D

M
IN

IST
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
iN

T
S, SU

B
PO

E
N

A
S, N

O
T

IC
E

 T
O

 C
E

A
SE

 
6 

SU
PPL

E
M

E
N

T
A

L
 IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

IPR
O

SE
C

U
T

IO
N

 SE
R

V
IC

E
S U

N
IT

 
I 

H
L

L
7O

B
 

0.50 
$106.35 

$53.18 
12/20/2012 

81 
E

SO
/E

R
O

 
H

L
L

7O
B

 
050 

$106.35 
$53.18 

12/21/2012 
81 

E
SO

IE
R

O
 

O
B

 
0.10 

$106.35 
$10.64 

12/26/2012 
37 

R
E

V
IE

W
 L

E
rrE

R
 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
- F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
item

izedcost 

Staff C
ode 

A
ctivity H

ours 
Staff R

ate 
C

ost 
A

ctivity D
ate 

A
ctivity C

ode 
A

ctivity D
escription 

IC
O

M
PL

IA
N

C
E

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 U
N

IT
 

IC
O

N
S

U
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

Page 
1 of2 

H
A

 107 

1A
107 

H
A

 107 
H

A
 107 

H
A

 107 
H

A
 107 

Sub T
otal 

I .O
O

 

0.60 
0.60 
1.20 
2.00 
0.50 

5.90 

$54.90 

78 
25 

25 
78 

77 
$27.45 

12/13/2012 

$328.26 

1188 

1188 

1188 

1.00 

1.00 

0.50 
1.50 

I.00 

$63.98 
$63.98 
$63.98 
$63.98 

S
ub T

otal 
5.00 

$319.90 



ol 
M

edical Q
uolily 

R
eport D

ate 
08/29/2013 

Page 2 of 2 

Staff C
ode 

A
ctivity H

ours 
Staff R

ate 
C

ost 
A

ctivity D
ate 

A
ctivity C

ode 
A

ctivity D
escription 

M
O

b 
***C

O
N

FJD
E

N
T

IA
L

*** 
T

im
e T

racking System
 

Item
ized C

ost by C
om

plaint 
C

om
plaint 

201213608 

H
L

L
7O

B
 

0.20 
$106.35 

$21.27 
12/27/2012 

36 
PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 O

R
 R

E
V

ISIO
N

 O
F L

E
T

I'E
R

 
H

L
L

83B
 

0.20 
$106.35 

$21.27 
02/12/2013 

81 
IE

R
O

 
H

L
L

7O
B

 
1.20 

$106.35 
$127.62 

02/12/2013 
81 

E
SO

IE
R

O
 

O
I3 

0.80 
$106.35 

$85.08 
02/20/2013 

28 
PR

E
PA

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
ISE

 A
D

M
IN

IST
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

O
B

 
0.30 

$106.35 
$31.91 

02/27/2013 
89 

PR
O

B
A

B
L

E
 C

A
U

SE
 PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

H
L

L
7O

B
 

0.30 
$106.35 

$31.91 
02/28/20 13 

63 
PR

E
SE

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 O
F cA

SE
S T

O
 PR

O
B

A
B

L
E

 C
A

U
SE

 PA
N

E
L

 
O

B
 

0.10 
$106.35 

$10.64 
03/01/2013 

90 
PO

ST
PR

O
B

A
B

L
E

C
A

U
SE

PR
O

C
E

SSIN
G

 

Sub T
otal 

4.20 
$446.70 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
-- F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 U

SE
 O

N
L

Y
 - 

item
izedcost 



ol 
*** C

 O
N

 F ID
E

 N
T

! A
L

 *** 
M

edical Q
uality A

sw
rance 

T
im

e T
racking System

 
\ 

Item
ized E

xpense by C
om

plaint 
C

om
plaint 

R
eport D

ate: 
08/29/2013 

Page 
I of! 

- 
E

xpense 
E

xpense 
E

xpense 
- 

S
taff C

ode 
D

ate 
A

m
ount 

C
ode 

E
xpense C

ode D
escription 

SubT
otal 

T
otal E

xpenses 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
-- F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
lizedexpense 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH. 

In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Ryan Daniel Rodriguez, RPT 
Ltense No.: RPT 5867 
Case No.: 2012-13608 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF LICENSE 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS, State Surgeon General and Secretary 

of Heafth, ORDERS the emergency suspension of the license of Ryan D, 

Rodriguez, RPT ("Mr. Rodriquez"), to practice as a registered pharmacy 

technidan inthe State of Florida. Mr. Rodriguez holds license number RPT 

5867 and his mailing address of record is 11179 Peerless Lane, 

Jacksonville, Florida 32246. The following Findings of Fact and Condusions 

of Law support the emergency suspension of Mr. Rodriguez's license to 

practice as a registered pharmacy technician in the State of Florida. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

rinal Order No. 
-MQA 

F(IEDDAflFEEB 1 4 2013 

Agency Clerk 

1. The Department of Health ("Department") is the 

charged with regulating registered pharmacy technicians, 

Chapters 20, 456 and 465, Florida. Statutes (2012). Section 

Florida Statutes (2012), authorizes the State Surgeon 

summarily suspend Mr. Rodriguez's license to practice as 

state agency 

pursuant to 

456073(8) 

General to 

a registered 



In Re: The Emagency SuspeSon of the of 
Ryan D. Rodriguez, RPT 

ljcense Number: Rfl 5867 
Case Numba: 

pharmacy technician in the State of Florida, in accordance with Section 

120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2012). 

2, At l times to is Order, Mr. Rodriguez was licensed 

to practice as a registered pharmacy technician pursuant to Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

3. On or about October 24, 2012, in the Circuit Court of the 

Fourth Judicial Circuit in and for Duval County, Florida, in case number 16= 

2012-CF-008994, . Rodriguez entered a plea of guilty to unlawful 

possession of a controlled substance, a third degree felony, in violation of 

Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2012). 

4. Section 456.074(1), Florida StatUtes (2012), provides that the 

Department shall issue an emergency order suspending the license of any 

person licensed tinder Chapter 465, Florida Statutes, who enters a plea of 

guilty to a felony under Chapter 893, Florida Statutes, regardless of 

adjudication. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General 

concludes as follows: 

2 



In Re: The Emergency of the License of 
Ryan D. Rodriguez, 
License Number: RPT 5867 
Case Number: 2012-13608 

1. The Department of Health has jurisdiction pursuant to Sections 

20.43, and 456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012). 

2. The Department must suspend Mr. Rodriguez's license to 

practice as a registered pharmacy technician in accordance with Section 

456.074(1), Florida Statutes , 
3. This summary procedure is fair under the circumstances to 

adequately protect the public. 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Section .074(1), Florida 

Statues, it is ORDERED ThAT: 

1. The license of Ryan D. Rodriguez, RPT, license number RPT 

5867, is immediately suspended. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal suspension or discipline of the 

license of Mr. Rodriguez to practice as a registered pharmacy technician 

will be promptly instituted and acted In compliance with Section 

120.569, Florida Statutes (2012). 

DONE and ORDERED this 

_____ 

day of 2013. 

St e Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

3 



Zn Re: The Emergency Suspension of the of 
Ryan D. iguez, Rfl 

Number: RPT 5867 
Case Number 2012-13608 

PREPARED BY: 
Thomas 3. Morton 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar # 13771 
(850) 245-4444 x 8212 phone 
(850) 245-4662 fax 
@doh.state.fl.us 

4 



In Re: The Emergency Suspendon of the Ucense of 
Ryan D. Rodriguez, Rfl 
Ucense Numb&: RPT 5867 
Case Number: 2012-13608 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Sections 120.60(6), and 120.68, Florida Statutes, the 

Department's findings of immediate danger, necessity, and 

fairness shall be judicially reviewable. Review proceedings are governed 

by the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure. Such proceedings are 

commenced by filing one copy of a Petition for Review, in accordance with 

Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.100, with the Department of Health 

and a second copy of the Petition accompanied by a filing fee prescribed by 

law with the District Court of Appeal within thirty (30) days of the date this 

Order is filed. 

5 



Minion: 
To protect, promote & h'nprove the health 
of all people in ida through mtegraS 
state, caunly & cammunhty effort Vt 

HEALTH 

Rick Scott 

John N. Armstrong, MD, FACe 
State Swgeon General & Seautery 

Vision; To be the Healthiest Stats bi the Nation 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

Petitioner 
vs 

Ryan D. RodriQuez, RPT 
Respondent 

Case No. 201213606 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Afflant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on 02/20/13 , Afflant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve__ Administrative 
Complaint and related papers; 

_____ 

Order compelling examination(s); Subpoena(s); 

_________Final 

order; 

_______Notice 

to cease and desist; X ESO/-ERO and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below 

X Afflant made personal service on Respondent's mother NADINE RODRIGUEZ at their address of 
record 11179 Peerless Lane. Jacksonville. FL 32246 

______Affiant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for 
Respondent shown in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown 
in his licensing records on the computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last 

known to frequent; (d) DMsion of Drivers Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, 

State Of Florida 
County Of Duval 

Before me, personally appeared Steohen Kavser whose identity is known to me by 
personal knowledQe (type of identification) and who, acknowledges that hisiher signature 

appears above. 

Sworn t6# Affiant before me this th day of February 20 fl. 
L 

- 

-. 

Fiorida Dspartm.nt of ltntth 
of Quay Assurance • Bureau of Enforcement 

1912 heet, Unit 104 'JadcsofwItle, FL 32210 
PHONE: 904/381-8022 • FAX 904/381-6050 

.FicstdssHsaith.com 
TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA lealth 

YOIfl1JBE: fidoh 

area " 

Notà Public-State of Florida i L 
Type or Print Name 

-My Commission Expires 

AMYL DENNIS 
Commission#D0873183 
ExpiresMwth23,2013 

Tigy FT 



USPS.com® - Track & Confirm,, Page 1 of I 

Search USP&com or Track Pa 

Quick Tools Ship a Package Send WIsH Manage Your Mail Shop Business Solutions 

Track & Confirm 
GET D2TAJIS 

Depart USPS Sort February 22,2013 lity JACKSONVILLE, FL 32203 

Prucessed February 22, 2013, JACKSONVILLE, FL 32203 

Check on Another Item 
What's your label (or ret) number? 

through USPS 5:12 am 

Sort Fadlity 

ESO: 12-13608 2119/13 T. Mortou 

PS Form 3811, ry 2005 bomestic Return Rec 

https://tools.usps.com/golrrackConfinnAction_input?qtc_tLabelSl 7196900891118828190... 3/1/2013 

Engflsh cusmmer 

ice 
uSps Reflter I Sign In 

YOUR LASS NUMBER 0 STATUS OF YOUR 
ITEM 

lvered 
DATE & TIME 

11:05 am 

LOCATION FEATURES 

February 23,2013, JACKSONVILLE, FL 32246 Certified Mail. 
Return Receipt 

LEGAL ON USPS.COM ON ABOUT.USPS.COM 

Privacy Policy' Government Services) About USPS , 
Terms of Use' Buy Stamps & '- Newsmomn' , 

, 

No FEAR Act a Mide Number 

OThER USPS1 

Business Custcj 
Postal hIspectcl - 
Inspector 
Postal Explore 1196 9006 9111 8828 1900 
Copyright© 20d 

3. Service Type CERTiFIED MAILTh 

4. RestrIcted Delivery? (Extra Fee) C Yes 

1. Article Addressed to: 

Ryan Daniel Rodriquez, RPT 
11179 Peerless Lane 
Jacksonville, a 32246 

0. Is delivery aMmesa differed 
Ii YES, enter delIvery addless be!ovc 



- Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To pmtect, & improve the health 

I I 

John H. *smstrong, MD, FACS 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State hi the Nalion 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Florida Administrative ly, Liz loud 

FROM: Berita Pope, Regulatory Supervisor I Consultant 

RE: Ryan Daniel Rodriguez, RPT., License # RPT 5867 MW # 12668411) 

CASE NO: 2012-13608 

DATE: February 19, 2013 

Attached please find notice of the issuance of an Emergency Suspension of License for notice in the 
next issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. 

On February 14, 2013, the State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension of 
License with regard to the license of Ryan Daniel Rodriquez, License # RPT 5867 This Emergency 
Suspension of License was predicated upon the State Surgeon Generals findings of an immediate and 
serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6) 
Florida Statutes (2011). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair 
under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public. 

Florida Department of Heaith .com 
Office of the General CowS- Proseuffon SeMces Unit TWflERt(eathyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress - Talbhassee, Fl. 32399.3265 leami 
PHONE 850-2454444 • FAX 850-2454662 YOtJRJBE: Mcli 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Jacksonville Date of Case: 9/13/12 Case Number: RPT 2012-13596 
Subject: 

RYAN DANIEL RODRIGUEZ, REGISTERED 
PHARMACY TECHNICIAN 
11179 Peerless Lane 
Jacksonville, Fl 32246 
H (904) 945-9059 

Source: 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH! 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES UNIT 
JACKSONVILLF 

Prefix: RPT License #: 5867 Profession: Board: Pharmacy Report Date: 
Registered 9/28/12 
Pharmacy 
Technician 

Period of Investigation: 9/17/12 — 9/28/12 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: F.S. 456.072(1)(a)(m)(z)(dd) "The following acts Making misleading, deceptive..." 
"Making deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent representations...'" Being unable to practice with reasonable..." 
"Violating any provision of this chapter..." F.S. 465.016(1)(d)2.3.(i)(m)(r) "The following acts Being unfit 
or incompetent The misuse or abuse of any medicinal drug "Any abnormal physical or mental 
condition Compounding, dispensing, or distributing a legend drug Being unable to practice 
pharmacy with reasonable skill .." "Violating any provision of this " 
Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon an internal complaint from the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES UNIT - JACKSONVILLE in regard to RYAN RODRIGUEZ, a Registered Pharmacy 
Technician at lgreens alleging that on 9/10/12 RODRIGUEZ was arrested by the Jacksonville Sheriffs Office on one 
count of Trafficking in Opium or Derivative and a second count of Theft.of Any Amount of Controlled Substance. 
Through an investigation by the Jacksonville Sheriffs Office it also became known that RODRIGUEZ was involved in 
diversion of narcotics from four different lgreen's stores. RODRIGUEZ admitted that he had taken controlled 
substances for over a year from lgreen's stores and was ultimately terminated, (Exhibit 1). 

RODRIGUEZ was notified of the investigation by a letter hand-served by this Investigator on 9/17/12 to his address of 
record. RODRIGUEZ was provided a copy of the Case Summary and attachments, (Exhibit 2). 

o 1 
A search of the DOH licensure database reveals RODRIGUEZ is currently licensed as a Registered 
Technician. RODRIGUEZ'S license is currently Clear/Active. RODRIGUEZ first obtained his license on 1 

, 
A patient advisement letter was not necessary as this case does not involve patient care. 5. 
RODRIGUEZ is not known to be represented by an attorney with this matter. 

RODRIGUEZ in a telephone conversation with this Investigator on 9/26/12 indicated that he wishes to 
Pharmacy Technician license, and will be responding to the Board by way of a written response in the near future. Any 
information and/or interviews conducted subsequent to the completion of this final report will be forwarded in the form of 
a supplemental report. 

Related Case: None 

Investigator/Date: Approved 

Todd P. McCormick Wendy F 
Investigation Specialist II (Jr-91) 9/28/12 Investigato 
Distribution: HQ/ISU 

y/D 

r Sup 
A Pece7vea 

ervisor ( - 

1 

INV Form 300 7/02 

HQ 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPcnd CASE RPT 2012-1 3596 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER I 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3-5 

Interview of RICHARD MCGOWAN, Loss Prevention Officer (Witness) 5 
Interview of BRADLEY BODIFORD, Assistant State Attorney (Witness) 5-6 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. CaseSummary&Attachments 7-13 

2. Subject Notification Letter & Attachments, (including Voluntary Relinquishment paperwork) 
hand-served to RODRIGUEZ'S residence dated 9/17/12 14-23 

3. Copy of Subpoena A 0074296 issued to lgreens for a copy of evidence of alleged 
medication diversion 24-25 

4. Copy of Administrative Paperwork from lgreens received via UPS on 9/26/12 26-50 

* 5. Copy of Administrative Paperwork from lgreens received via email, (formatted onto CD) on 
9/26/12 51 

6. Copy of RODRIGUEZ'S Sworn Statement provided to the Jacksonville Sheriffs Office 
received from the Assistant State Attomey's Office via facsimile on 9/28/12 52-53 

7. Copy of an IPN/DOH Investigator Communication Form this Investigator faxed to PRN for 
current PRN activity of RODRIGUEZ on 9/17/12 54-55 

8. Copy of an IPN/DOH Investigator Communication Form response received via facsimile from 
PRN on 9/18/12 56-57 

EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE 
SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(1O)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE CASE JER: RPT 2012-13596 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 
Exhibit 1 is a copy of the Case Summary. In addition to the Case Summary, additional records were 
provided. Through review of these records this Investigator noted: 

e A copy of a l-lealthcare Practitioner Complaint Form 
A copy of a Jacksonville Sheriffs Office Arrest and Booking Report, (Incident Number 
667762) which indicates that the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office was contacted by RICHARD 
MCGOWAN, a Walgreen's Loss Prevention Officer who advised that RODRIGUEZ has been 
stealing Hydrocodone and Xanax from various lgreen's stores that he had been working 
in Duval county. Investigation revealed that RODRIGUEZ had been stealing controlled 
substances from the following lgreen's pharmacies located at: 6006 Beach Boulevard, 
14450 Beach Boulevard, 10899 Baymeadows Road, and 406 Atlantic Boulevard. On 7/08/12, 
MCGOWAN interviewed RODRIGUEZ at the lgreen's located at 6006 Beach Boulevard, 
at which point RODRIGUEZ admitted that he had been taking both controlled substances 
from the listed pharmacies for the past year. RODRIGUEZ also admitted this information to 
the Jacksonville Sheriffs Office. RODRIGUEZ further indicated that he was addicted to the 
Hydrocodone, which was why he was taking the medications. Walgreens suffered a total loss 
of 2,500 Hydrocodone tablets, and 800 Xanax tablets which totaled over $1900. The amount 
of Hydrocodone taken well exceeded the trafficking amount of four grams. RODRIGUEZ 
completed a written statement. 

Exhibit 3 is a copy of Subpoena A 0074296 issued to lgreens for a copy of evidence of alleged 
medication diversion. 

Exhibit 4 is a copy of Administrative Paperwork from lgreens received via UPS on 9/26/12. A copy 
of a completed lgreen's Certification of Records form is included. Through review of the 
Administrative Paperwork this Investigator noted: 

• A copy of RICHARD MCGOWAN'S, lgreen's Loss Prevention Officer) Case Inquiry 
Report, (Case Number 1241763) which indicates that at a Walgreens store, located at 6006 
Beach Boulevard in Jacksonville, Fl, RODRIGUEZ admitted to stealing 1,310 Hydrocodone 
10-325 tablets, 1,310 Hydrocodone 10-500 tablets, and 400 Alprazolam 2mg tablets, which is 
valued at $1,995.52 for over "the past 8 months". The investigation was predicated on 
noticing suspicious negative adjustments at several stores while reviewing the "LPxRx" 
reports. The suspects were narrowed down to RODRIGUEZ, who worked as a floater 
technician at the stores which were experiencing the shortages. RODRIGUEZ was 
interviewed and provided a full written admission for the theft of drugs. RODRIGUEZ was 
arrested and is pending prosecution. During the investigation, MCGOWAN noticed suspicious 

• negative adjustments for Hydrocodone 10-325, Hydrocodone 10-500, and lprazolam 2mg 
during the month of 4/12. MCGOWAN noticed these suspicious negative adjustments for 
stores #4281 (14405 Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl), #4310 (406 Atlantic Boulevard 
Neptune Beach, Fl), # 4327 (6006 Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl). A further 52-week 
history on these drugs provided further confirmation of the suspicious activity. RODRIGUEZ 
was identified as a floater technician working at these stores during the time of the suspicious 
negative adjustments. On 9/08/12, MCGOWAN was alerted by store #4310 (406 Atlantic 
Boulevard Neptune Beach, Fl) that lprazolam 2mg were missing during a narcotic count. 
RODRIGUEZ had been working as a floater at this store at the time of the suspicious 
negative adjustment. RODRIGUEZ was interviewed at the office in store # 4327, (6006 
Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, !) and stated that he stole the drugs during the delete 
process. RODRIGUEZ further stated that he took lprazolam prescriptions 
from the bins, put the stolen pills into his pocket and discarded the vials into the "DPI" box: 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE RENJJ CASE IuJER: RPT 201 2-1 3596 

RODRIGUEZ maintained that he stole the drugs due to a back injury that he had suffered in 
high school, and agreed to provide Waigreens full restitution in the amount of $1 

• A copy of RODRIGUEZ'S voluntary written statement dated 9/10/12 in which he indicates that 
he had been addicted "off and on" to Hydrocodone for about a year. He did not have any 
medical coverage to go to a doctor, so he "decided to take some from the certain 
pharmacies" that he was working at. At times RODRIGUEZ would take a prescription of 40- 
60 tablets a day, and at other times he took more. RODRIGUEZ admits to taking narcotics 
from the following stores: 05788, (10899 Baymeadows Road Jacksonville, Fl), #4281, (14405 
Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl) #4310, (406 Atlantic Boulevard Neptune Beach, Fl), and 
#4327, (6006 Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl). RODRIGUEZ further admitted to taking the 
pills from the pharmacies by "doing the deletes", and putting the empty bottles into the "DPI" 
box. 

• A copy of RODRIGUEZ'S Time Card Entries form which cover the time period of 9/01/11 
through 6/28/12. This Investigator noted RODRIGUEZ was working in lgreens stores # 
4281 (14405 Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl), #4310 (406 Atlantic Boulevard Neptune 
Beach, Fl), #4327 (6006 Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl) during the 4/12 time period. In 
addition this Investigator noted that on 4/09/12 RODRIGUEZ worked at store #4310 (406 
Atlantic Boulevard Neptune Beach, Fl) location. 

• A copy of "Pharmacy 52 Week WIC Activity" Reports for the following Walgreens stores: # 
4281 (14405 Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl), #4310 (406 Atlantic Boulevard Neptune 
Beach, Fl), #4327 (6006 Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl) and #5788 (10899 Baymeadows 
Road Jacksonville, Fl). Through review of the reports this Investigator noted negative 
adjustments ofstores#4281 (14405 Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl), #4310 (406 Atlantic 
Boulevard Neptune Beach, Fl), # 4327 (6006 Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl) involving 
Hydrocodone 10-325 tablets, Hydrocodone 10-500 tablets during the 4/12 time period. S is a copy of Administrative Paperwork from Waigreens received via email on 9/26/12. This 

Investigator placed the information onto a CD format. Through review of the Administrative 
Paperwork this Investigator noted corresponding Narcotic Dispensing Reports, (additional 
information) for the time period of 9/10/11 through 9/10/12 for each of the four lgreen's store 
locations: #4281(14405 Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl), #4310 (406 Atlantic Boulevard Neptune 
Beach, Fl), #4327 (6006 Beach Boulevard Jacksonville, Fl) and #5788 (10899 Baymeadows Road 
Jacksonville, Fl). 

INVESTIGATOR'S : 
Through speaking with the Walgreen's Legal Department on 9/25/12 this Investigator was advised 
that RODRIGUEZ has been terminated, however there is no actual termination form in which can be 
produced. 

Exhibit 6 is a copy of RODRIGUEZ'S Sworn Statement provided to the Jacksonville Sheriffs Office 
received from the Assistant State Attorney's Office via facsimile on 9/28112. Through review of 
RODRIGUEZ'S Sworn Statement this Investigator noted that RODRIGUEZ indicated that he has 
been addicted to Hydrocodone for about a year. RODRIGUEZ did not have any medical coverage 
to see a doctor, so he decided to take some from the "certain pharmacies" that he was working at. 
RODRIGUEZ "started taking them about a year ago, but was able to get off of them for a short 
period of time and stop". RODRIGUEZ tried to stop consuming the pills, but has been unable to. 
RODRIGUEZ wants to get off, but he can not because every time he tries to get off the pills, he 
suffers from withdrawals. 

Exhibit 7 is a copy of an IPN/DOH Investigator Communication Form this Investigator faxed to PRN 
for current PRN activity of RODRIGUEZ on 9/17/12. 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REpijnr CASE NUi:,SER: RPT 2012-1 3596 

Exhibit 8 is a copy of an IPNIDOR Investigator Communication Form response received via facsimile 
from PRN on 9118112. Through review of this response form this Investigator noted that 
RODRIGUEZ was not reported to, nor did RODRIGUEZ contact PRN in reference to this case. 

INTERVIEW OF RICHARD MCGOWAN 

Loss Prevention Officer 
lgreens 
800 Southpoint Parkway 
Jacksonville, Fl 32216 
W (904) 296-1043 
C (904) 487-1827 

On 9/18/12 this Investigator interviewed MCGOWAN via telephone from his place of employment 
listed above. MCGOWAN essentially stated: 

o MCGOWAN, a Loss Prevention Manager had observed "negative adjustments" on pharmacy 
reports. 

• Due to the reports of narcotic shortages an investigation was commenced. 
• RODRIGUEZ became the "common denominator" during the investigation, as he was a 

floater, and had worked at the various Waigreen's pharmacies that reported "negative 
adjustments". 

• RODRIGUEZ was interviewed by MCGOWAN, at which time he admitted to the theft of 
Hydrocodone and Xanax. 

• RODRIGUEZ further admitted that he had given some pills to friends, as well as used the pills 
for his own personal consumption. 

• There are no known witnesses to RODRIGUEZ'S narcàtic activity. 
• The different pharmacists that worked with RODRIGUEZ did not observe anything and would 

have no additional information other than what is printed out in the pharmacy reports. 
• RODRIGUEZ has been terminated from his position, 
• MCGOWAN had no additional information other than what he has provided in his report, 

(Exhibit 4). 

MCGOWAN had no additional information to add at this time. 

INTERVIEW OF BRADLEY BODIFORD ) 
Assistant State Attorney 
Office of the State Attorney 
220 East Bay Street 
Jacksonville, Fl 32202 
W (904) 630-2379 

On 9/28/12 this Investigator interviewed BODIFORD via telephone from his place of employment 
listed above. BODIFORD essentially stated: 

• RODRIGUEZ will be formally charged on one count of Theft of a Controlled Substance, and a 
second count of Possession of a Controlled Substance during his arraignment which is 
scheduled to be held on 10/0311 2. 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 5 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE CASE NIA.dER: RPT 2012-1 3596 

• RODRIGUEZ has had a clean criminal record leading up to this incident. 
• BODIFORD will be releasing RODRIGUEZ'S sworn statement that he made to the 

Jacksonville Sheriffs Office to this Investigator, (Exhibit 6). 

BODIFORD had no additional information to add at this time. 

INVESTIGATOR'S : 
On 9/17/12, this Investigator hand served a Subject Notification Letter and Voluntary Relinquishment 
of License paperwork to RODRIGUEZ'S address of record. On 9/26/12, this Investigator followed up 
with a telephone call to RODRIGUEZ'S residence. RODRIGUEZ informed this Investigator that he 
wished to keep his Registered Pharmacy Technician license, and would be providing a written 
response as to the allegations in the near future. As of this date, this Investigator has not received a 
response. Any information and/or interviews conducted subsequent to the completion of this final 
report will be forwarded in the form of a supplemental report. 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 6 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


DEPARTMENT OF 

DEALT 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Date of Complaint: Case Number: 

CONSUMER SERVICES December 6, 2012 201213608 

Subject: 
RYAN IEL IGUEZ, RPT 
11179 Peerless Lane , FL 32246 
(904) 945-9059 

Source: 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 

RPT 5867 Registered Pharmacy Pharmacy 12/12//12 
Technician 

Period of Investigation: Type of Report: 
12/10/12 through 12/12/12 FINAL 

AHeged Violation: § 456.072(1)(c)(dd); 465.016(1)(fl(r),FS; Having been convicted or found guilty in a court of 
this state or other jurisdiction, of a crime which directly relates to the ability to practice of pharmacy : This investigation is predicated on the receipt of information from DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
alleging RODRIGUEZ was convicted on 10/24/12 in Duval County for Theft of Controlled Substance 
r812.014(2)(c), FS] and Possession of Controlled Substance 893.13(6)(a), FS]. Court Documents indicate 
RODRIGUEZ was Adjudicated Guilty Withheld and placed on Probation. (EXHIBIT #1) 

RODRIGUEZ was notified of this complaint by letter, dated 12/10/12. The notification was sent to the address 
of record. Forwarded with this letter were copies of the UCF and the initiating documents. (EXHIBIT #2) 

DOH licensure information was reviewed on 12/12/12. It reflects RODRIGUEZ is duly licensed to practice as a 
Registered Pharmacy Technician in the State of Florida under Clear / Active status. 

No patient(s) was/were identified, thus patient notification was not required. 

RODRIGUEZ does not appear to be represented by counsel in this matter as of the date of this report. 

RODRIGUEZ has not responded as of this date. 

Related Case: 

I 

Leo Paulson (HA1O7) 12/12/12 

Approved By/Date: 

Shane Walters, OMC Manager UEC 13 
Distribution: Prosecution Services Unit/Consumer Services Unit Page 1 



I INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER 201213608 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER PAGE 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

II. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Records 3 
Interview/Statement of DOH 3 

. EXHIBITS 

1) Uniform Complaint Form, Initiating Documents & Court Documents 4-13 

2) SUBJECTs Notification Letter 14 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER 201213608 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF RECORDS 

There were no authorizations, medical records, or Verification of Completeness of Record forms 
at issue in this matter. 

Exhibit #1 contains the following: 

• Court Documents from the Duval County Court stating on 10/24/12 RODRIGUEZ was 
Adjudicated Guilty Withheld and put on Probation. 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENT OF - Source 

RODRIGUEZwas convicted on 10/24/12 in Duval CountyforTheftof Controlled Substance 
(812.014(2)(c), FS] and Possession of Controlled Substance 893.13(6)(a), FS]. Court Documents 
indicate RODRIGUEZ was Adjudicated Guilty Withheld and placed on Probation. 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201019143 

JAMES M MAISTER, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: JAMES M MAISTER 
4810 DIAMONDS PALM LOOP 
WESLEY CHAPEL, FL 33543 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. Although the Respondent is not required to be present, 
it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan 
Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as 'timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by US. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013 

rd Executive Director 
OF PHARMACY 

(Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health .com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HeaIThyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOIJTUBE: fldoh 



HEALTh 
Rick Scott 

Mlsslonr Governor 
To protect, prornote & irnprove the health 

of all people in Florida through inte9rated John ii. Annstrong, FACS 
slate, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Secretary 

Visions To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Casey Cowan, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 
SUBJECT: DON v. James M. Maister, R.PH. 

DON Case Number: 2010-19143 

DATE: August 16, 2013 

Enclosed you wilt find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following information 
is provided in this regard. 
Subject: James M. Maister, R.PH. 

1 

Subject's Address of 4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Record: Wesley Chapel, FL 33543 
Enforcement Address: 4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 

Wesley Chapel, FL 33543 

Subject's License No: 34202 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 23211 

Initial Licensure Date: 7/19/1999 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Violated Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes 
(2010) by violation of 893.13(7)(a)9, Florida Statutes 
(2009) 

Prior Discipline: 4000, I; 5020, DOH-02-1354-FOI 
Probable Cause Panel: Meshad & Weizer 

March 28, 2013 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department Of Health 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Proseajtion Services Unit TWIUER:HealttiyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row-Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4683 



Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues of 
Material Fact for Final Order 

Administrative Complaint 
Motion to Assess Costs 

Exhibit A-Affidavit of Fees and Cost 
Exhibit 1-Complaint Cost Summary 
Exhibit 2-Itemized Cost by Complaint 

Board Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 
Supplemental Investigative Report dated 4/18/2013 
PCP Memo 
PRN Letter 
456 Materials 
456 Request 
Letters/Response 
Confidentiality Agreement (signed) 
Final Investigative Report 
Exhibits 1-17 

CLC/bhh 

Disciplinary Guidelines: Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2010)- $1,500 
fine and one (1) year probation up to $5,000 fine and one (1) year suspension. 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: SE1TLEMENT AGREEMENT 

One count AC alleging a violation of Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2010), by a 

violation of 893.13(7)(a)9, Florida Statutes (2009), by attempting to obtain a controlled 
substance by fraud, a third degree felony. 

On or about August 17, August 29, and September 8, 2010, Respondent filled a fraudulent 
prescription for hydrocodone/APAP, at a Target Pharmacy #1382, located in Wesley Chapel, 
Florida. On or about September 30, 2010, the Pasco County Sheriff's Office arrested 
Respondent and charged him with three (3) counts of attempting to obtain a controlled 
substance by fraud, a third degree felony in violation of Section 893.13(7)(a)9, Florida 
Statutes. 

Florida Department of Health ldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Services Unit TWI1TER:HealthyPLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofllealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 FAX 850/2454683 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2010-19143 

JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PHE, 

Respondent 

_____________________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER AFTER A HEARING NOT INVOLVING 
DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACTS 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a 

Final Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been 

determined and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore Petitioner 

states: 

1. Petitioner previously filed an Administrative Complaint against 

Respondent alleging that Respondent had violated the provisions of Florida 

Statutes, as set forth therein. Petitioner, by filing the Administrative 

Complaint, is seeking to discipline Respondent's license to practice 

Pharmacy, thereby affecting Respondent's substantial interests. 



2. On or about April 2, 2013, Petitioner served Respondent with 

the Administrative Complaint via Certified Mail at 4810 Diamonds Palm 

Loop, Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543. Petitioner, by serving Respondent 

with the Comp'aint, provided Respondent written notice of 

its decision to seek discipline of the Respondent's license to practice 

pharmacy. 

3. Respondent has filed an Election of Rights Form or other 

responsive pleading evincing, or has otherwise indicated, that Respondent 

does not dispute the material facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

4. There are no disputed issues of material fad to be resolved by 

the Board. 

5. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, 

establishing a prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy, after allowing Respondent the opportunity to present oral 

and/or written evidence in mitigation of the Administrative Complaint, enter 



a Final Order imposing whatever discipline upon Respondent's license that 

the Board deems appropriate. 

Respectfully submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Heath 

IIL. COWAN 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0035536 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: casey_cowan@doh.state.fi.us 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this day of 

2013, to: JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PII., at 

4810 DIAMONDS PALM LOOP, WESLEY CHAPEL, FLORIDA 33543. 

CASEYJ... COWAN 
Assistant General Counsel 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

ERq 
v. CASE NO. 2010-19143 

]AMES . MAISTER, RPH, 

RESPONDENT. I 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner Department of Heath, by and through its undersigned 

counsel, files this Administrative Cornplatnt before the Board of Pharmacy 

against Respondent, James M. R.!h., and in support thereof 

alleges: 

Petilioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed pharmacist within the state of Florida, havingbeen issued license 

number PS 34202. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 4810 Diamonds Palm Loop, 

Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543. 

On or about St 17, 2010, Respondent filled a fraudulent 

prescription for hydmcodone/APAP, at a Target Pharmacy #1382, located 

Wesley Chapel, Florida. 

• S. Hydrocodone/APAP contains hydrocodone and ace.tamtnophen, 

or Tylenol and is prescribed to treat pain. According to Section 893.03(3), 

Florida Statutes, hydrocodone, in the dosages found in hydrocodone/APAP 

is a Schedule III controlled substance that has a potential for abuse less 

than the substances in Schedules I and II and has a currently accepted 

medical use in treatment in the United States, and abuse of the substance 

• niay lead to moderate or low physical dependence or high psychological 

dependence. 

6. On or about August 29, 2010, Respondent filled a fraudulent 

prescription fOr at a Target Pharmacy #1382, located In 

Wesley Chapel, Florida. 

7. On or about September 8, 2010, Respondent fflled a fraudulent 

prescription for hydrocodone/APAP, at a Target Pharmacy #1382, located In 

Wesley Chapel, Florida. 

Depazttitnt of Healthy. s 14. Malst&, RPH 2 

Case Numbs 2010-19143 



8. On or about September 30, 2010, the Pasco County Sheriff's 

Office arrested Respondent and charged. him with three (3) counts of 

attempting to obtain a controlled substance by fraud, a third degree felony 

in vidlation of Section 893.13(7)(a)9,, Florida Statutes, 

Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2010), provides that a 

pharmacist can be disciplined, Including suspension, for violating a 

provision of Chapter Florida 

10, SectIon Florida Statutes (2010), provides that It 

is unlawful for any person to acquire or obtain, or attempt to acquire or 

obtain, possession of a iled substance by misrepresentation, fraud, 

forgery, deception, or subterfuge. 

ii. As set forth above, on or about September 30, 2010, the Pasco 

County Sheriff's Office arrested Respondent and charged him with three 

(3) counts of attempting to obtain a controlled substance by fraud, a third 

degree felony In violation of Section 893.13(7)(a)9, Florida Statutes. 

12. Based on the foregoing, Respondent vIolated Section 

465.016(t)(e), Florida Statutes (2010), by a violation of 893.13(7)(a)9, 

Florida Statutes (2009), by attempting to obtain a contmlled substance by 

fraud, a third degree felony. 

of Healthy. James II. iMer, RP*4 3 

Case Nunter 10-19143 



WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondents license, resfriction of 

practice, of an administraUve fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or cnliected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 
1 

SIGNED this day of . 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

ILED 
DEPAnMEM. OF HEALTh DEptJn ic CLERK Angel Sandes 

Cey LO - 
istant General Counsel 
Ha. Bar No. 0035536 
Florida Department of Health• 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 
Tallahassee, Morida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4640 

(850) 245-4683 
Email: 

PCP: 
PCP Members: Wetw k ?sko4 

DepeIvnen o( health V. James P4. RPtI 

Case 201019143 
4 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120369 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and to call and 
cross-examine withesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on hisor her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to . investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may: indude attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other disciplineimposed, 

Department of Health v. J&ncs M. MaIStht, RPt( 
5 

Case Numbef 2010-19143 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

0 CASF 0 
JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH., 

Respondent 

___________________________________I 

MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION ) 

COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry of 

a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the 

investigation and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states 

the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of 

Pharmacy will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary 

action and will enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or 



after July 1, 2001, pursuant to this section or 
discipline imposed through final order, or 
citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001, for a 

violation of any practice act, the board, or the 
department when there is not board, shall assess 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution 
of the case. Such costs related to the 
investigation and prosecution include, but are 
not limited to, salaries and benefits of personnel, 
costs related to the time spent by the attorney 
and other personnel working on the case, and 
any other expenses incurred by the department 
for the case. The board, or the department 
when there is no board. shall determine the 
amount of costs to be assessed after its 
consideration of an affidavit of itemized costs 
and any written objections . . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted 

in costs in the total amount of $4, 393.92, based on the following 

itemized statement of costs 

Cost to Date ***** 

Hours Costs 
Complaint: 1.60] $92. 1 
Legal: 

Compliance: 0.00 0.00 

Sub Total: 
J 

1 
Expenses to Date: J___________ l 
Prior Amount: 

1 

Total Costs to Date: 
I 

$4, 

2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $2,165.07 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. the Respondent file wrftten objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of 

the costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests that 

the Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based upon its 

consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any timely-filed 

written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and 

assess costs in the amount of $2,165.07 as supported by competent, 

substantial evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any other 

discipline imposed by the Board and is in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the Board 

of Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent 

in the amount of $2,165.07. 

3 



DATED this 3 day of , 2013. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon l and Secretary of Health 

CASEY . COWAN 
Assistant General Counsel 
Florida Bar No.: 0035536 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Motion to Assess Costs has been provided by U.S. Mail this 

day of 

________________, 

2013, to: JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH., 

4810 DIAMOND PALM LOOP, WESLEY CHAPEL, FLORIDA 33543. 

CASEY L. 
Assistant General Counsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
00K. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 2010-19143 (Department of Health v. JAMES M. 

MAISTER, R.PH.) are FOUR THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED 
NINETY-THREE DOLLARS AND NINETY-TWO CENTS ($4, 393.92). 

6) The costs for DOH case numbers 2010-19143 (Department of Health 
v. JAMES NI. MAISTER, R.PH.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost 
Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 2010-19143 
(Department of Health v. JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH.) are detailed in 

Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and 
receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 

I of2 



keep track of their time in six-minute increments. (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

A JJ 
Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this______ day of 2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is pers nally known to me. 

Notary Signature 

Name Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 



Cost Sumntary 
Complaint Number: 201019143 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: MAISTER. JAMES M 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.ftus/IRMOOTIMETRAKJCSDETL.ASP 

[ 
Cost to Date 

Hours Costs 

1.60 ¶92.191 

Thveshgation: 
] 

Legal: 20.6011 1 
Compliance: ir 011 so.ool 

********** **********l 
Sub Total: 53.10 

[ 
¶4,393.921 

Expenses to Date: 
[ 
l 

Prflor Amount: _____________ ¶0.00 

ITotat Costs to Date: 
1 

¶4,393.92 



Q
iv

hi
on

 i 
x 

C
 O

N
E

 I
D

 E
N

T
 L

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
M

se
la

nc
e 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

N
4 
\ 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
on

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
10

19
14

3 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/1
6/

20
 1

3 
P

ag
e 

I 
of

4 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 U

N
IT

 

H
A

I7
 

0.
10

 
$5

7.
62

 

H
A

I7
 

0.
10

 
$5

7.
62

 

$5
.7

6 
$5

.7
6 

11
/2

4/
20

10
 

11
/2

9/
20

10
 

I I 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 D

U
T

IE
S

 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 D
U

T
IE

S
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

0.
20

 
$1

1.
52

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

H
A

 1
07

 
0.

80
 

$5
7.

62
 

$4
6.

10
 

10
/0

51
20

10
 

78
 

IN
IT

IA
L 

R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
LY

S
IS

 O
F

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

H
A

IO
7 

0.
60

 
$5

7.
62

 
$3

4.
57

 
02

/2
2/

20
12

 
64

 
LE

G
A

LA
D

V
IC

E
/D

IS
C

U
S

S
IO

N
- 

B
O

A
R

D
O

F
F

LC
E

,D
E

P
T

S
T

A
F

F
O

R
A

T
T

Y
G

E
N

 O
F

F
: 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

1.
40

 
$8

0.
67

 

IIN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

12
3 

1.
10

 
$6

5.
23

 
$7

1.
75

 
10

/0
8/

20
10

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

T
ll2

3 
1.

80
 

86
5.

23
 

$1
17

.4
1 

10
/1

2/
20

10
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

1l
23

 
1.

30
 

86
5.

23
 

$8
4.

80
 

10
/1

3/
20

 1
0 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

T
I 

12
3 

0.
20

 
$6

5.
23

 
$1

3.
05

 
10

/1
3/

20
10

 
tO

O
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 O
F 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

S
, 

S
U

B
P

O
E

N
A

S
, 

N
O

T
IC

E
 T

O
 C

E
A

S
E

 

12
3 

2.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$1

35
.6

2 
10

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

L 
T

IM
E

 

12
3 

7.
50

 
$6

7.
81

 
$5

08
.5

8 
10

/1
5/

20
10

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

12
3 

1.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$6

7.
81

 
10

/1
9/

20
10

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

12
3 

1.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$6

7.
81

 
10

/1
9/

20
10

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

12
3 

2.
10

 
$6

7.
81

 
$1

42
.4

0 
10

/2
6/

20
10

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

12
3 

2.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$1

35
.6

2 
10

/2
6/

20
10

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

T
I 

12
3 

3.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$2

03
.4

3 
10

/2
7/

20
10

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

l2
3 

1.
50

 
$6

7.
81

 
$1

01
.7

2 
10

/2
7/

20
10

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

11
23

 
1.

00
 

$6
7.

81
 

$6
7.

81
 

10
/2

8/
20

10
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

12
3 

1.
50

 
$6

7.
81

 
$1

01
.7

2 
10

/2
8/

20
10

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

12
3 

1.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$6

7.
81

 
10

/2
8/

20
 1

0 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

12
3 

0.
30

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

9.
19

 
04

/I6
/2

01
3 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

w
 

Fl
or

id
a 

O
ep

ar
tn

ie
nt

 o
f 

H
ea

lth
 

--
 F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 -
- 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 



at
 

x*
*C

O
N

F
1D

E
N

T
E

A
L*

**
 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lil
y 

A
ss

ut
an

ce
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
10

19
14

3 

R
ep

or
tD

at
e 

08
/1

6/
20

13
 

P
ag

e2
of

4 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

1 
1.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
3.

98
 

04
/I7

/2
01

3 
10

0 
N

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

S
, S

U
B

P
O

E
N

A
S

,N
O

T
IC

E
T

O
C

E
A

S
E

 
1 

0.
60

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

8.
39

 
04

/1
8/

20
13

 
10

0 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
 O

F 
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
S,

 S
U

B
PO

E
N

A
S,

 N
O

T
IC

E
 T

O
 C

E
A

SE
 

11
23

 
1.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
3.

98
 

04
/I 

8/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

30
.9

0 
$2

,0
72

.8
8 

IP
R

O
S

E
C

U
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

H
L

L
8I

B
 

2.
60

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$2

90
.0

6 
11

/1
2/

20
10

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 
H

L
L

8I
I3

 
0.

10
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$1
1.

16
 

10
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
C

A
SE

FI
L

E
 

H
L

L
8I

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$4

4.
62

 
11

/1
5/

20
10

 
35

 
T

E
LE

P
H

O
N

E
 C

A
LL

S
 

H
LL

8I
 B

 
0.

80
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$8
9.

25
 

11
/1

8/
20

10
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 
IB

 
0.

50
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$5
5.

78
 

11
/1

8/
20

10
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 
H

LL
8I

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$4

4.
62

 
11

/1
8/

20
10

 
26

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 M

E
M

O
R

A
N

D
U

M
 

R
IB

 
0.

50
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$5
5.

78
 

11
/2

2/
20

10
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 
H

LL
8 

I 
B

 
0.

60
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$6
6.

94
 

11
/2

2/
20

10
 

26
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
E

 M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 
H

LL
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$2

2.
31

 
09

/0
9/

20
11

 
78

 
IN

IT
IA

L 
R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

LY
S

IS
 O

F
 C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
H

LL
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$2

2.
31

 
09

/0
9/

20
11

 
78

 
IN

IT
IA

L 
R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

LY
S

IS
 O

F
 C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
E

IL
L6

7B
 

1.
30

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$1

45
.0

3 
10

/0
3/

20
11

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

S
E

 F
IL

E
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

30
 

$ 
I 

I 
I 

.5
6 

$3
3.

47
 

10
/0

3/
20

11
 

64
 

LE
G

A
L 

A
D

V
IC

E
/D

IS
C

U
S

S
IO

N
 - 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
F

IC
E

,D
E

P
T

 S
T

A
F

F
 O

R
 A

T
T

Y
 G

E
N

 O
F

F
: 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

30
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$3
3.

47
 

10
/0

3/
20

11
 

36
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

O
R

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

O
F

LE
T

T
E

R
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$2
2.

31
 

10
/0

3/
20

11
 

46
 

LE
G

A
L 

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

 
H

LL
67

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$4

4.
62

 
10

/0
3/

20
11

 
81

 
E

S
O

/E
R

O
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

40
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$4
4.

62
 

10
/0

3/
20

11
 

46
 

LE
G

A
L 

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

 
H

LL
67

A
 

0.
30

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$3

3.
47

 
10

/0
3/

20
11

 
64

 
LE

G
A

L 
A

D
V

IC
E

/D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 - 
B

O
A

R
D

 IC
E

,D
E

P
T

 S
T

A
F

F
 O

R
 A

T
T

Y
 G

E
N

 O
F

F
: 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$2
2.

31
 

10
/0

5/
20

 I 
I 

26
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
E

 M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 
IL

L6
7B

 
0.

20
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$2
2.

31
 

10
/0

5/
20

11
 

81
 

/E
R

O
 

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$2

2.
31

 
10

/0
5/

20
11

 
28

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$2
0.

48
 

02
/0

5/
20

12
 

37
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

30
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$3
0.

72
 

02
/0

5/
20

12
 

46
 

LE
G

A
L 

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

 
H

LL
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

02
.4

1 
$2

0.
48

 
02

/2
2/

20
12

 
64

 
LE

G
A

L 
A

D
V

IC
E

/D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 - 
H

O
A

R
D

 O
F

F
IC

E
,D

E
P

T
 S

T
A

F
F

 O
R

 A
T

T
Y

 G
E

N
 O

F
F

 
H

LL
67

B
 

1.
30

 
$1

02
.4

 I 
$1

33
.1

3 
02

/2
2/

20
12

 
36

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 O

F
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

30
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$3
0.

72
 

07
/0

6/
20

12
 

37
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
--

 
ite

m
iz

ed
co

st
 



D
iQ

hi
on

 1
 

w
 x

 
M

ed
ic

ol
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

 0
 N

 F
 I

 D
 E

 N
 T

 I
 A

 L
 * 

* 
* 

1 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 C

os
t b

y 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

10
19

14
3 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/1
6/

20
13

 
P

ag
e3

of
4 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

13
 

.0
.2

0 
$1

02
.4

1 
$2

0.
48

 
09

/1
1/

20
12

 
46

 
L

E
G

A
L

 R
E

SE
A

R
C

H
 

H
L

L
67

B
 

10
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$1
0.

24
 

09
/1

8/
20

12
 

37
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

-I
L

L
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

02
.4

1 
$2

0.
48

 
09

/1
8/

20
12

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 
13

 
0.

30
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$3
0.

72
 

09
/1

8/
20

12
 

46
 

L
E

G
A

L
 R

E
SE

A
R

C
H

 
H

L
L

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$2
0.

48
 

09
/1

8/
20

12
 

36
 

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F 

L
E

T
T

E
R

 
1-

IL
L

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$2
0.

48
 

09
/2

1/
20

12
 

37
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

H
L

L
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

02
.4

1 
$2

0.
48

 
09

/2
1/

20
 1

2 
46

 
L

E
G

A
L

 R
E

SE
A

R
C

H
 

FI
L

L
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
12

/1
0/

20
12

 
37

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 L
E

T
T

E
R

 
H

L
L

67
B

 
,2

0 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
12

/1
0/

20
12

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 
-I

L
L

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

12
/1

0/
20

12
 

46
 

L
E

G
A

L
 R

E
SE

A
R

C
H

 
I-

IL
L

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

01
/0

2/
20

13
 

46
 

L
E

G
A

L
 R

E
SE

A
R

C
H

 
13

 
0.

60
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$6
3.

81
 

01
/0

2/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
SE

 F
IL

E
 

H
L

L
67

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
01

/0
2/

20
13

 
31

 
PR

E
PA

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 C

L
O

SI
N

G
 O

R
D

E
R

 
H

L
L

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

01
/0

2/
20

 1
3 

32
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

L
O

SI
N

G
 O

R
D

E
R

 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

01
/1

4/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

C
A

L
L

S 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

01
/1

5/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

C
A

L
L

S 
IL

L
67

A
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
01

/1
5/

20
13

 
35

 
T

E
L

E
PH

O
N

E
 C

A
L

L
S 

H
L

L
67

A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
02

/2
0/

20
13

 
35

 
T

E
L

E
PH

O
N

E
 C

A
L

L
S 

-I
L

L
67

A
 

0.
80

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$8

5.
08

 
02

/2
0/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 

H
L

L
67

A
 

0.
50

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$5

3.
18

 
02

/2
0/

20
13

 
31

 
IS

E
C

L
O

SI
N

G
O

R
D

E
R

 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

50
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$5
3.

18
 

02
/2

1/
20

13
 

28
 

PR
E

PA
R

E
O

R
R

E
V

IS
E

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

04
/0

2/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

 C
A

L
L

S 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

9!
 

04
/1

5/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

 C
A

L
L

S 
L

IL
L

67
A

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

04
/1

9/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

C
A

L
L

S 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

50
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$5
3.

18
 

04
/1

9/
20

13
 

40
 

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

O
FO

R
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
O

FA
PL

E
A

D
IN

G
 

H
L

L
67

A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
04

/1
9/

20
13

 
36

 
PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
O

R
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
O

FL
E

T
T

E
R

 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

40
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$4
2.

54
 

05
/0

1/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

C
A

L
L

S 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

20
.6

0 
$2

,2
28

.8
5 

I 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
- 

F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 -

- 
ite

m
iz

ed
co

st
 



D
M

si
c,

n 
ol

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

M
 Q

A
 

**
*C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

fl
A

L
**

* 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 C

os
t 

by
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

10
19

14
3 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/1
6/

20
13

 
P
a
g
e
 
4
 o
f
4
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

T
ot

al
 C

os
t 

$4
,3

93
.9

2 

F
lo

rE
da

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
-.

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 



C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L 

**
* 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
uo

lil
y 

t.s
su

ra
nc

e 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

08
/1

6/
20

1 
3 

P
ag

e 
1 
of

 I 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 

- 
F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 -
- 

ite
m

iz
ed

ex
pe

ns
e 



Rick Scott Mission: I 
Governor 

To protect promote & improve the health I 

__________ 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
state,county&communityefforls. 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FAGS 

H State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

August 20, 2013 

VIA U. S. MAIL 

JAMES M. MAISTER 
4810 DIAMOND PALM LOOP 
WESLEY CHAPEL, FLORIDA 33543 

Re: DON vs. JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH. 
DON Case Number: 2010-19143 

Dear Mr. MAISTER: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material 
fact executed by you on May 3, 2013, concerning the above referenced case. This means that the 
facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction because, 
by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary case. Since you 
are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, you are not admitting the facts 
alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, you are agreeing not to contest these facts and to limit 
presentation to legal argument, if any, and to matters in mitigation or extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9, 2013, at the Wyndham bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley 
Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408. Please be advised your case will be set at the 
convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the 
date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

CASEYUL. COWAN 
Assistant General Counsel 

CLC/bhh 

Florida Department of Health nlth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Services Unit 

TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C.65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

YGUTUBE: tldoh 
PHONE: 8501245-4444 ' FAX 8501245.4683 



ELECTION OF RIGHTS 
Case Name: James NI. Maister, R.Ph. Case No. 2010-18143 

PLEASE SELECT ONLY I OF THE 3 OPTIONS 

An Eqtnadon of Rights Is attached. If you do not inlerstand these options, please consult with yohttorney or contact the 

attorney for the Pmj%wbon SeMces Unit at the address/phone number listed at the bottom of this form. 

OPTION 1. A51.... I do not dispute the allegations of fact In the Administrative Complaint, but do Ish to be accorded a hearing, 

pursuant to Section 120.57(2), ida Statutes, at Which time I will be permitted to submit oral and/or written evidence In mitigation of 

the to the Board. 

OPTION 2. 

____ 

I do not dispute the allegations of fad contained In the Coniplaint and waive my right to 

object orb be heard. I request that the Board enter a final order pursuant to Section 120,57, Portda Statutes. 

OPTION 3. 

_____ 

I do dispute the allegations of fad contained In the Admnthlstrative Complaint and request this to be 

considered a ØEtltlon for formal hearing, pursuant to Sections 120.569(2)(a) and 120.57(1), Florida Statutes, before an Adminisbathe 

Law Judge appdnS by the OKision of Admlnlsfrative I specifically dispute the following paragraphs of the 
Complaint 

In addition to the above selection. X Mso elect the : 
I the temis of the Settlement Agreement, have signed and am returnIng the Settlement Agreement or I 
am Interested In seWing this case. 

I do not wish to continue practidng and have signed and returned the Voluntary RelinquIshment of ilcensure 
form. 

Regardless of which option I have selected, I understand that! will be given notice of time, date, and place when this 
matter is to be considered by the Board for Final Action. Mediation under Section 120.573, Honda Statutes, Is not available in this 

matter. 

(Please sign and complete all the information below.) 

IL CONFIDENTIAL 

Respondent's slgnature_ .-: 
Address: 

I — 

r 
Uc. No. 

_______ 

Phone No. 

Fax No. 

STATE OF 
COUNTY OF 
Before me personally appeared whose Identity is known to be by - 
(type of Identification), under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed by 

.!WPoy4ent of 2013 cHAEL HEATh 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

Notary .• 

JSTATE Off Fl.ORJQA 

My Expires: i3 — . . Comm# EES4n5 res 1113/2011 
PLEASE MAIL AND/OR FAX COMPLETED FORM TO: Casey L Cowan, Assistant General Counsel, DOH, Prosecution 
Services UnIt, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-eS, Tallahassee, florida 32399-3265- Telephone Numberi (850)245- 
4444; FAX (850) 245-4683- TDD 1-800-955-8771. S 

,.t4 

, 



Cowan, Casey 

From: Cowan, Casey 
Sent: Friday, April 19, 2013 4:02 PM 

To: 
Subject: Proposed settlement agreement/confidentiality agreement 

Attachments: Maister, James (2010-19143).pdf 

Mr. Maister, 

Per our conversation this afternoon please find the proposed settlement offer and confidentiality agreement attached to 

this email. Please confirm that you received this email. If you had any trouble opening the attachments please contact my 

office and we will mail you a paper copy. Upon receipt of the signed confidentiality agreement we will provide you with a 

copy of the complété investigative file. If you have any further questions or concerns please contact me at the number 
listed below. 

Maister, James 
(2O10-19143).pd... 

Thank you, 

Casey L. Cowan, Assistant General Counsel 
Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4444 ext. 8103 

Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from state officials regarding 
state business are public records available to the public and media upon request. Your e-mail communications may 
therefore be subject to public disclosure. However, if this e-mail concerns anticipated or current litigation or adversarial 
administrative proceeding to which the Florida Department of Health is a party, this email is an attorney-client 
communication, and is, therefore, a limited access public document exempt from the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes. See Section 119.071(d)1., Florida Statutes (2010). 

DOH Mission: To protect, promote & improve the health of all people in Florida through Integrated 1 county, & 
community efforts. 

Vision: Healthiest State in the Nation 

Values: (ICARE) 
I nnovatiort: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely. 
C oltaboratlon: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems. 
A ccountability: We perform with integrity & respect. 
R esponsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & engaging our partners. 

E xcellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & continuous performance improvement. 

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail. Go Green! 

1. 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONERS 

v. CASE NO. -19143 

JAMESM. MAISTER, RPH, 

RESPONDENT. 

St i i LEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

/ 

1. At all times material to this matter, James M. Maister, RPI-I, was 

a licensed pharmacist in the state of Ftorida, having been issued license 

number PS 34202. Respondent's mailing address of record is 4810 

Diamonds Palm Loop, Wesley Chapel, Florida 35543. 

. 



2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida 

STIPULATED LAW 

•j Respondent admits that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department 

2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DIsposmow 

1. - Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed two thousand seventeen 

dollars and ninety-two cents ($2,017.92). Total costs shall beassessed 

2 



when the Settlement Agreement is presented to the 

be paid by Respondent to the Department of 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 

Florida 32314-6320, within one (1) year of the 

accepting and incorporating this Settlement Agreement. 

3. CE - Respondent shall successfully complete a 

Continuing Education Course or the subject of Laws and Rthes consistfirtg 

of 12 hours of credit, which has approved by the Florida Board of 

Pharmacy, within one (1) year of the filing of a Final Order accepting and 

incorporating this Settlement Agreement. These continuing education 

hours shall be in addition to the hours required for license renewal. Within 

ten (10) days of completion of the course and/or receipt of the certificate 

of completion, Respondent shall mail a copy of the continuing education 

certificate of completion to the Pharmacy Compliance Officer at the address 

listed in paragraph two (2) above. 

4. Evaluation and - Respondent shall contact the 

Professional Resource Network (PRN), submit to an evaluation, and comply 

with all treatment requirements imposed by any contract with PRN. 

3 

Board. The costs shall 

Health, Compliance 

6320, Tallahassee, 

filing of a Final Order 



5. - Respondent shall be placed on probation for five (5) 

years. During the period of probation, Respondent shall be subject to the 

following terms and 

a. Respondent shah not function as a prescription 

department manager in any Florida permitted pharmacy during 

the probation; 

b. Respondent shaH not work at or for more than 2 

pharmacies during each quarter of the probationary period, 

unless Respondent obtains prior written approval from the 

Board; 

c. During the first year of Respondent's probation, the 

Department shall conduct semi-annual audits of 5 randomly 

selected controlled substances at the Respondent's place of 

employment at Respondent's cost; 

d. R.espodent shall submit written reports to the Compliance 

Officer for the Medical Quality Assurance/Compliance 

Management Unit, Compliance Officer, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, 

Bin C-al, 32399-3251. These reports shall include 

Respondent's license number, current address, and phone 

4 



number; current name, address, and phone number of each 

pharmacy in which Respondent is engaged in the practice of 

pharmacy; the names of all pharmacists, pharmacy interns, 

pharmacy technicians, relief pharmacists, and prescription 

department managers working with Respondent. These reports 

shall be submitted to the Compliance Officer every 3 months in 

a manner as directed by the compliance officer; 

e. Respondent shall ensure that his employer submits 

written reports to the Compliance Officer for the Medical 

Quality Assurance/Compliance Management Unit, Compliance 

Officer, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin i, 32399-3251. These 

reports shall contain the name, address, license number, and 

phone number of each pharmacy intern, pharmacy technician, 

relief pharmacist, and prescription department manager 

working in the prescription department where Respondent 

practices, and provide a brief description of Respondent's 

duties, responsibilities, and working schedule. These reports 

shalt be submitted to the Compliance Officer every 3 months in 

a manner as directed by the compliance officer; 

S 



f. Respondent shall comply with any and all 

recommendations from PRN; and 

g. Respondent shall make a mandatory appearance before the 

Board of Pharmacy during his last three (3) months of probation. The 

Board retains the right to extend Respondent's term of probation or to 

impose additional restrictions, conditions or limitations on Respondent's 

license. 

6. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499 or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

7. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board for which disdplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

B. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

6 



the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolutionof these proceedings. 

10. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

- 7 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

9. Puroose of Agreement This Settlement Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prbr to, or conjunction with, consideration of 



proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint 

11. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

12. Waiver of Procedural - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to and further of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

13. Current - Respondent shall keep current his 

mailing address and his practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this 

matter. 

SIGNED this day of 2013 

James M. Maister, RN 
cASE NO. 2010-19143 

B 



STATE OF_______________ 

COUNTY OF 

Before me personally appeared RPH, whose identity 
known to me or by (type of 
identification), and who, under oath, acknowledges that her signature 
appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 2013. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

APPROVED this day of 

____________________, 

2013. 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 

Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Casey L. Cowan 
Assistant General Counsel 

Counsel for Petitioner 
Casey L. Cowan 
Florida Bar No. 0035536 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 
Tel.: 850.245.4640 ext. 8103 
Fax: 850.245.4683 

9 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Area VI Tampa Date of Case: 10-05-10 Case Number 201019143 

Subject: JAMES NI. MAISTER, R.PH Source: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543 
813-545-9446 (C) 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
2201 34202 Pharmacist Pharmacy 04-18-13 

Period of Investigition: 04-17-13 through 04-18-13 Type of Report Supplemental -1 

Alleged Violation: 465.016(1)(d)2.34e)(i)(m)(r), F.S., s. 456.072(1)(a)(m)(z), F.S.: 2.The misuse or abuse of;any 
medicinal drug appearing in any schedule set forth in chapter 893. 3. Any abnormal physical or mental condition which 
threatens the safety of persons to whom she or he might sell or dispense prescriptions, drugs.. (e)Violaling chapter 499; 
21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392, known as the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act;... (i)Compounding, dispensing, or distributing 
a legend drug, including any controlled substance, other than in the course of the professional practice of pharmacy... 
(m)Being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason of illness, use of drugs, narcotics, 
chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental or physical condition... (r)Violating any provision of this 
chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto... (a)Making misleading, deceptive, or fraudulent 
representations in or related to the practice of the licensee's profession... (m)Making deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent 
representations in or related to the practice of a profession or employing a trick or scheme in or related to the practice of a 
profession... (z)Being unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety to patients by reason of illness or use of alcohol, 
drugs, narcotics, chemicals... 

Synopsis: This supplemental investigation is predicated upon receipt of a PSU Request Form requesting for 
Service (Exhibit #S1-1) of Administrative Complaint and related papers from CASEY L. COWAN, Esq. 

On Wednesday, April 17, 2013 Investigator TERRENCE DAWKINS hand served Administrative Complaint 
and related papers to adult female who identified herself as the spouse of JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH 
4810 Diamonds Palm; Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543. 

-a O 1 
-D 

C I 
SI-I PSU Request Form, pp. 2-3 -2 Affidavit of Service, p.4 r 
Related Case(s): 2010-19119 

Investigator/Date: 04A8/1 34. 4 Approved By/Date: 4 — 2 — 

Victor R. Troupe \/ L.JJY1 f'y 3 Babette S. Agett, TI —115 
Medical Malpractice Investigation Supervisor 

Distribution: HQJISU Page 1 

'APR 1 9 20U 
Page 1 

o 



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OP 

HEALT 
Consumer 

Services ULA 

INN FORM 376, Revised l. 10/11,6/10, 06/09,4/09, Il/OS Created 4/05 

- VW% 



ck L.cott 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the healU 

_________ 

Roridä John H. Armstrong, D, FACS 

HEAL1H State Surgeon General & Secretory 

ion: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

AFFiDAVIT OF SERVICE 

Florida Department of Health 
Petitioner 

vs Case No. 2010-19143 
JAMES M. MAISTER, R.Ph. 
Respondent 

COMES NOW, the afflant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) AThant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on 04-17-13 , Affiant made a diligent effort to locate respondent & to serve 
an Administrative Complaint Packet 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

X Affiant made personal service to MAISTER's Wife on behalf of JAMES MAISTER, RPh. at his residence of 
4810 Diamonds Palm, Wesley Chapel, FL 33543, on (date) 04-17-13 

_______Affiant 

wasunable to make service after searching for Respondent at (a) all addresses for Respondent 
shown in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records 
on the computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to 
frequent; (d) Division of Drivers Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); any others: 

_________________________ 

State Of arid 
County Of Hillsboroucth 

Before me, personally appeared Terrence Dawkins whose identity is known to me by personally 
(type of identification) and who, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

rnt before me this 18th day of April , 

Notary Public-State of Florida My Commission Expires 

Type or Print Name 

"t2. 'viCTOR ft TROUPE 

£tL&ta comrnlsslon#DO 922813 

Expires 3,2013 
Iltu Tmy e 

JXHIS!T# 
H 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
of Medical Quality Assurance • Bureau of Enfocsment 

6800 N. Dale Mabry Hwy Ste. 220' Tampa, FL 33614 FACEBOOKFLDepartrnentofl-lealth 
PHONE: 813.871-7262 'FAX 813-871-7421' CELL 813-326-4301 VOUTUBE: fidoh 

• a. - -t 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott Mission: I ,: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health _ 

state, county & community efforts. j John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
of all people in Flodda through inte9rated flir'' 

H EALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

June 19, 2013 

James Maister 
4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543 

Re: Complaint Name: James Maister, R.PH. 
Case Number: 2010-19143 

Dear Mr. Maister: 

Pursuant to section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, enclosed is a copy of the Department's 
complete investigative file in this matter. We are providing you with a copy of the 
investigative file for Case Number: 2010-19143, James Maister, R.PHS, pursuant to 
the rules of discovery. We are sure that you will respect the confidentiality of the patient 
records pursuant to Chapter 456, Florida Statutes. 

If you have any questions please give me a call at (850) 245-1111 ext. 8103. The CD is 
password protected, the password is 456. 

Respectfully, 

y L. Cowan 
Assistant General Counsel 

CLC/bhh 
Enclosures: Investigative File #: 2010-19143 

Invoice #: MQPR13-681 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel' Prosecution Services Unit lealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Am C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 85012454444• FAX 8501245-4683 



Acknowledgement of and 
Agreement to Maintain Patient Confidentiality 

the Subject of art investigation by the Department of Health. 

As the Subject of such an investigation I am entitled to Inspect or receive a copy of the investigative 

report or patient records connected with the Investigation pursuant 

to Section 456.073(10). Florida Statutes, if I agree in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any 

information received under this provision, until 10 days after probable cause is found and to maintain 

the confidentiality of patient records pursuant to Section 456.057, Florida Statutes. 

1 understand the cost associated with duplicating x-rays and I want { ) do not want ) to 

receive a copy of any x-rays that are contained Within the. investigative file. 

SIGNED this day of 

___________________ 

2013. 

James M. Maister, R.Ph. 
2010-19143 



- 

Jam
es M

aister 
T

E
R

$ 

flda3?543 
aua 

S
 a. 

F
O

R
E

V
E

R
 

C
asey L C

ow
an, A

ssistant G
eneral C

ounsel 
t 

D
ept of H

ealth, P
rosecution S

ervices U
n1t 

4052 B
ald C

ypress W
ay, B

in C
-65 

T
allahassee, F

lorida 32399-3265 

- 
- 

i 



\ ' Rick Scott 
Mission Governor 

! btidã: John H. Armstrong, MD, • Surgeon & Seaelary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest Slate In the 

April 19, 2013 

James lvi. Maister, R.Ph. 
4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543 

Re: Complaint No. 2010-19143 
Respondent: James M. Maister, R.Ph. 

Dear Mr. Maister: 

Pursuant to section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, you requested a copy of the Department's 
investigative file. Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, provides in part: 

The complaint and all information obtained pursuant to the investigation by the 
department are confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) until 10 days after probable 
cause has been found to exist by the probable cause panel or by the department, or until 
the regulated professional or subject of the investigation waives his or her privilege of 
confidentiality, whichever occurs first. Upon completion of the investigation and a 
recommendation by the department to find probable cause, and pursuant to a written 
request by the subject or the subject's attorney, the department shall provide the subject 
an opportunity to inspect the investigative file or, at the subject's expense, forward to the 
subject a copy of the investigative file. Notwithstanding s. 456.057, the subject may 
inspect or receive a copy of any expert witness report or patient record connected with 
the investigation if the subject agrees in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any 
information received under this subsection until 10 days after probable cause is found 
and to maintain the confidentiality of patient records pursuant to s. 456.057.. 

Attached for your review is an Acknowledgement of and Agreement to Maintain Patient Confidentiality. 
Please sign and return the enclosed form to my office as soon as possible. The signed confidentiality 
agreement will be placed in our file. If you have any questions, please give me a call at (850) 245-4444 
x 8103. 

Respectfully, 

c..asey Cowan 
Assistalit General Counsel 

Enclosure; Confidentiality Agreement 

Florida Depwtanent of Health iidasHoalth.com 
of the GeneS CowS • ProsaSon SeF*es Unit ITFER±eathyftA 

4052 Bald Cypiess Way, Bin C65 Tallahassee, Fl. 32399-1701 lealth 
PHONE: 850t245-4444 FAX 850!245-4E83 fldoh 



Acknowledgement of and 
Agreement to Maintain Patient Confidentiality 

I, 

___________________________, 

am the Subject of an investigation by the Department of Health. 

As the Subject of such an investigation, I am entitled to inspect or receive a copy of the investigative 

report, including any expert witness report or patient records connected with the investigation pursuant 

to Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, if I agree in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any 

information received under this provision, until 10 days after probable cause is found and to maintain 

the confidentiality of patient records pursuant to Section 456.057, Florida Statutes. 

I understand the cost associated with duplicating x-rays and I want ( do not want ( to 

receive a copy of any x-rays that are contained within the Investigative file. 

SIGNED this 

____ 

day of 

__________________,2013. 

James M. Maister, R.Ph. 
2010-19143 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmavy 

RE: James Maister, R.Ph. 
Case Number: 2010-19143 

MEMBERS: Gavin Meshad and Michele Weizer 

DATE OF PCP: March 28, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-7 ....... .... . a..,, a,. .......... S... sna a 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Depariment, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise frilly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

ion lXe), Florida Statutes (2010). by a violation of )9, Florida 
Statutes 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

Upon rcconsideration, dismiss 

other: 

jib4t 6 
air, Probable 'Panel Date 

Board of Pharmacy 

c 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Area VI Tampa Date of Case: 10-05-10 Case Number: 201019143 
Subject: JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH Source: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
4510 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543 
813-545-9446 (C) 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
2201 34202 Pharmacist Pharmacy 10-28-10 
Period of Investigation: 10-08-10through 10-28-10 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: 465016(1 )(d)2.3.(e)(O(m)(r), F.S., 5. 456.072(1 )(a)(m)(z), F.S.: 2.The misuse or abuse of any 
medicinal drug appearing in any schedule set forth in chapter 893. 3. Any abnormal physical or mental condition which 
threatens the safety of persons to whom she or he might sell or dispense prescriptions, drugs... (e)Violating chapter 499; 
21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392, known as the Federal 1 Drug, and Cosmetic Act;... (i)Compounding, dispensing, or distributing 
a legend drug, including any controlled substance, other than in the course of the professional practice of pharmacy... 
(m)Being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason of illness, use of drugs, narcotics, 
chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental or physical condition... (r)Violating any provision of this 
chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto... (a)Making misleading, deceptive, or fraudulent 
representations in or related to the practice of the licensee's profession... (m)Making deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent 
representations in or related to the practice of a profession or employing a trick or scheme in or related to the practice of a 
profession... (z)Being unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety to patients by reason of illness or use of alcohol, 
drugs, narcotics, chemicals... 

Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a Case Summary, Exhibit #1, based upon complaint 
from Department of Health. On 09-30-10 JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH (PS 34202) was arrested for felony 
under Ch 893.13(7)(a)9. FS (Obtain controlled substance by fraud). In August and September, 2010 
MAISTER. presented and had filled prescriptions for Norco at a pharmacy in Wesley Chapel, Florida. The 
physician noted on the prescriptions denied writing them. 

MAISTER was notified of the investigation by letter dated 10-05-10(Exhibit #2) to the address of record and 
was provided a copy of the Case Summary and original documents that initiated the t' 

C) 
A check of DOH computer licensure records revealed MAISTER is currently licensed as a A 
copy of MAISTER's licensure printout is attached, Exhibit #3. 

:, 
The patient notification letter was not sent since there was no direct patient involvement. 

'0 rrj 
MAISTER is not represented by an attorney. . C\) 

On 10-27-10 Investigator TROUPE conducted an interview of MAISTER and in summary the allegations 
were concured. 

Related Case(s): 2010-19119 

Investigator/Date: 10-28-10 ...4 rj Approved lDate: tO —( O 
Victor R. Troupe !\ Babette S. Agett, TI —115 

_____ 

Medical Malpractice Investigator, Tl-123 U'- Investigation Supervisor 

Distribution: HQ/ISU I 

iT 7 £ 
1 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE RE JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. II'WESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER i 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2-3 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 44 

Interview of KATHY A. MOORMAN, R.Ph. (Witness) 7 
Interview of JAMES M. MAISTER, R.Ph. (Subject) 8 

IV. EXHIBITS 

* 1. CaseSummary 

* 2. Copy of subject notification letter dated 10-08-10 11 

3. Copy of DOH Licensure Printout 12-14 

* 4. PRN / DOH Investigator Communication Form 15-16 

Copy of Subpoena Duces Tecum A-0065688 directed to University Community Hospital 
Human Resources Department for copies of JAMES M. MAISTER's, R.Ph personnel records 

17-23 

* 
. JAMES M. MAISTER's, R.Ph personnel records received via United States Postal Service 

with certification of completeness of records 24-118 

* Documents obtained from Target Pharmacy #1 382 on 10-15-10 119-1 24 

* Documents obtained from KATHY A. MOORMAN, R.Ph. I Pharmacy Director of University 
community Hospital; Tampa, Florida 125-126 

* 9. JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 09-30-10 127 

Pasco Sheriffs Office Offense Incident Report of JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER Individual 
"-' Charge Report Number 10-059683-01 128-146 

* (RJi. Documents obtained from Pasco County Courthouse; Dade City, Florida on 10-15-10 
147-148 

* 12. JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 10-08-02 149-151 

* Documents obtained from lsborough County Courthouse; Tampa, Florida on 10-19-10 
152-169 

Page 2 



DON INVESTIGATIVE RE. JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

* 14. Documents obtained from lsborough County Courthouse; Tampa, Florida on 10-15-10 
170-172 

* 15. JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 09-06-99 173-174 

* 16. Documents obtained from Pasco County Courthouse; Dade City, Florida on 10-15-10 
175 

* 17. Florida Department of Health Physician Prescription Affidavits -179 

*EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE 
SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(1O)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

records are sealed pursuant to Section 456.057(10)(a), Florida Statutes and copies of 
same are not maintained in the Tampa Investigative Services office 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE , JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #4 is a facsimile request to PRN to determine if MAISTER has enrol led in, or is participating in 
the PRN program. PRN response via facsimile on 10-27-10 is that "Yes, Mr. MAISTER is under 
contract with PRN". 

Exhibit #5 is a copy of Subpoena Duces Tecum A-0065688 directed to University Community 
Hospital Human Resources Department for copies of JAMES M. MAISTER's, R.Ph personnel 
records. 

Exhibit #6 is JAMES M. MAISTER's, R.Ph personnel records received via United States Postal 
Service on 10-22-10 with certification of completeness of records. Pertinent documents consist of: 

• Termination Notification Form of MAISTER with an effective date of 10-1 8-1 0. 
• Letter of resignation by MAISTER dated 10-18-10 addressed to CAROL PAZOS, Director 

of Human Resources. 
Typed statement from unsigned writer. Statement documents: "...Adminstration has 
reviewed the situation including the theft of our prescription pad and the illegal use of that 
prescription pad. The decision of the organization is to terminate employment at the end of 
the FMLA. That means that Tuesday, 10/19 will be last date of employment Jim 
asked if he could resign and I told him I would accept his resignation..." 

• Typed unsigned and undated statement: "At 8 am on Thursday 9/23, Mr. JAMES 
MAISTER, presented himself to me with a request to self-report a drug addiction. Mr. 
MAISTER has been employed as a full-time pharmacist since 06-12-07. At the timetf his 
hire he presented documentation that his petition to terminate probation was to be heard by 
the Board of Pharmacy and Drugs for a past reported issue. 

During our meeting, he confessed he had a drug problem with hydrocodone. He stated 
that he had forged Dr. CANNELLA's signature on two occasions using UCH prescription 
pads totaling 150 pills. He stated he had not diverted any drugs from UCH... 

I contacted PRN and via speaker phone, Mr. MAISTER self-reported to the board. He was 
given the names of 3 psychiatrists and instructed to contact one of them for an evaluation. 
I told him that he could not return to work until he could present a contract from PRN and 
that I would contact ELAINE COPELAND for FMLA paperwork. And should his FMLA 
expire prior to obtaining a contract, he would be terminated and his future employment 
eligibility would be considered. He said he had used a good amount of FMLA already due 
to care for his wife and his own health issues. He then left my office..." 

• University Community Hospital Policy on prescription pad dispensing and control 

Exhibit #7 is documents obtained from Target Pharmacy #1382 on 10-15-10; Documents consist 
of: 

• Pharmacy profile of MAISTER 

Date Rx Written Fill Date Drug Physician Quantity 
08-16-2010 08-17-2010 Hydrococ/APAP 

10-325 Tab 
XAVIER 
CANNELLA 

90 

08-16-2010 06-29-2010 .Hydrococ / APAP 
10-325 Tab 

XAVIER 
CANNELLA 

90 

09-07-2010 09-08-2010 Hydrococ/APAP 
10-325 Tab 

XAVIER 
CANNELLA 

90 

Page 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE RE JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

Photo copies of prescriptions 
o Dated 08-16-10 for Norco g #90. One by mouth every six hours as 

needed. Refill documented as one. 
o Dated 09-07-10 for Norco 10/325mg #90. One by mouth every six hours as 

needed. Refill documented as two. 
o Pharmacy Signature Retrieval Signature Reports. 

Exhibit #8 is are documents obtained from KATHY A. MOORMAN, R.Ph. I Pharmacy Director of 
University community Hospital; 1 Florida, Documents is a PYXIS report of MAISTER from 
10-01-10 to 10-15-10. No narcotics noted as retrieved by MAISTER. 

Exhibit #9 is JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 09-30-1 0. 
Report documents MAISTER was arrested on 09-30-10 for obtaining controlled substance by 
fraud. 

Exhibit #10 is a Pasco Sheriffs Office Offense Incident Report of JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER 
Individual Charge Report Number 10-059683-01. Report documents: "...Onthe dates of August 
17 and September 8, 2010, the suspect, JAMES MAISTER presented and had filled, two forged 
prescriptions for Norco (Hydrocodone) at the Target Pharmacy located at 1201 Bruce B. Downs 
Blv. In Wesley Chapel, Florida. Additionally, on August 29, he presented the forged prescription of 
August 17 for a refill at the same Target Pharmacy. MAISTER paid for and picked up the 
medications as forged on the prescription forms, leaving the Target Pharmacy..." 

Exhibit #11 is a document obtained from Pasco County Courthouse; Dade City, Florida on 
10-15-10. Document consists of a Pasco County Complaint Affidavit for arrest of MAISTER on 09- 
30-10. Report documents: "...JAMES MAISTER admitted that he forged three prescriptions, 
signing as the doctor and did acquired possession of Norco (Hydrocodone) a controlled 
substance, by misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, contrary to Florida Statutes form the Target store 
Pharmacy, located at 1201 Bruce B. Downs in Wesley Chapel, Florida, Pasco County..." 

Exhibit #12 is JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 10-08-02. 
Report documents MAISTER was arrested on 10-06-02 for obtaining controlled substance by 
fraud. 

• Case Number 2002-CF-01 6551 Count One obtaining controlled substance by fraud. 
• Criminal Report Affidavit! Notice to Appear. 
• Uniform Plea, Acknowledgement and Waiver of rights form. 
• Judgment form. Form indicates MAISTER entered a plea of guilty and that adjudication of 

guilt was withheld and was placed on Drug offender probation for 16 months. 

Exhibit #13 is a document obtained from Hilisborough County Courthouse; Tampa, Florida on 
10-19-10. 

• Case Number 99-CM-024577 
o Offense date: 09-06-1 999 
o Battery (Domestic Violence) 
o Plea: No plea entered 

• Case Number 99-CM-02575 
o Offense date: 03-06-1 999 
o Obtaining property for worthless check 
o Plea: Nob Centendere 
o Suspended dep. Closed 

Page 5 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE 1 JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

Case 00-CM-006684 
o Offense date: 03-03-1 999 
o Obtaining property for worthless check 
o Plea: Not guilty 
o Finding: NoIIe-Prosequi 

Exhibit #14 is a document obtained from lsborough County Courthouse; Tampa, Florida on 
10-15-10. Document is a No Information form. Form states: "The State Attorney, having taken 
testimony under oath at a State Attorney investigation, concludes that the facts and circumstances 
revealed do not warrant prosecution at this time". 

Exhibit #15 is JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 09-06-99. 
Report documents MAISTER was arrested on 09-06-99 for obtaining controlled substance by 
fraud. 

Exhibit #16 are certified documents obtained from Pasco County Courthouse; Dade City, Florida 
on 10-15-10 for Case Number 99O112OMMAES. Form is a No Information from and documents: 
"The State Attorney, having taken testimony under oath at a State Attorney investigation, 
concludes that the facts and circumstances revealed do not warrant prosecution at this time". 

Exhibit #17 are Florida Department of Health Physician Prescription Affidavits signed by XAVIER 
CANNELLA, M.D. documenting prescriptions dated 09-07-10 for Norco 10/325 #90 and 
prescription 08-16-10 for Norco 10/325 # made to JAMES MAISTER are forgeries. 

Page 6 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE 1 .JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

INTERVIEW OF KATHY A. MOORMAN, R.Ph ) 
University Community Hospital 
3100 East Fletcher Avenue 
Tampa, Florida 33613-4658 
813-615-7114 

On Friday, October 15, 2010 Investigator TROUPE met with and interviewed KATHY A. 
MOORMAN at her place of employment University Community Hospital. MOORMAN stated that 
she is the Pharmacy Director. 

MOORMAN was asked to explain in detail her knowledge of this incident concerning 
JAMES M. MAISTER, R.Ph. She replied she was informed by the Human Resource that 
MAISTER had self reported himself for obtaining a prescription pad. MOORMAN said she was 
informed that MAISTER had obtained a hospital prescription pad and filled in a doctor's name and 
used the forged prescription to obtain control substances. 

MOORMAN said she questioned MOORMAN in the presence of a human resource 
personnel. She said MOORMAN stated he had used the prescription pad on two separate 
occasions. MOORMAN said MAISTER stated he had contacted the physician and self reported 
himself to PRN. She said MAISTER was very apologetic. MOORMAN said she thanked 
MAISTER. 

MOORMAN was asked how did MAISTER obtain the prescriptions pad. She said 
MAISTER obtained the prescription pads from the hospital. MOORMAN said she has not seen the 
forged script. She said the scripts belonged to Dr. XAVIER CANNERLA. MOORMAN was,asked. 
if MAISTER mentioned pharmacies the prescriptions were used at. She said the pharmacy. 
location was mentioned in the news and police report. MOORMAN was asked how long is/was 
MAISTER employed with University Community Hospital. She replied MAISTER was hired on 06- 
17-07 and is currently still employed as of today (October 15, 2010). MOORMAN said she hired 
MAISTER knowing he had been in the PRN program. MOORMAN was asked if MAISTER had 
any problems. She stated MAISTER adopted a five year old girl; sold his house; bought a new 
house; his wife was diagnosed with a serious illness and has been in & out of the hospital; he was 
in the hospital very sick with heart problems; wife can't drive and figured out was to get his wife 
around. 

MOORMAN was asked if there were any noted missing narcotics associated with 
MAISTER. She replied none associated with MAISTER. MOORMAN was asked if there were any 
narcotic discrepancies associated with MAISTER. She replied no PYXIS discrepancies associated 
with MAISTER. MOORMAN was asked if MAISTER had access to narcotics. She replied as a role 
the pharmacist never go into the system unless it is an emergency. MOORMAN said the 
pharmacist techs pulls drugs and places in bag and then initials and scan drug name. She said 
the pharmacist verify the correct drug, strength, amount and scan initials and then puts in a bin. 
She said the pharmacy tech then pulls the drug out of the bin and take to the floor. MOORMAN 
said when the tech arrives to the floor they scan the PYXIS machine and the correct draw opens 
and the tech counts the number of drugs currently present which is a blind count. She said the 
PYXIS either accepts or denies the number enters. MOORMAN said a second attempt is given 
and if the correct the product is closed in the draw. She said if incorrect the pharmacy tech 
notifies the leader of the unit and pharmacy director. MOORMAN said the Nurse Manager 
determines who had prior actions and if warrant an investigation is initiated. She said usually the 
count is correct. MOORMAN said the PYXIS system is a very safe system. MOORMAN said the 
PYXIS is very good in preventing diversion. 

Page 7 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE RE. JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

INTERVIEW OF JAMES M. MAISTERI R.PH. ) 
4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 335.43 
813-545-9446 (C) 

On Wednesday, October 27, 2010 Investigator TROUPE conducted a telephone interview 
with JAMES M. MAISTER, R.Ph. MAISTER said he has been a pharmacist for approximately 25 
years. He said he was last employed with University Community Hospital Tampa for three years. 
MAISTER said currently he is not working and is enrolled in the PRN program. He said he initially 
called PRN on 23 September 2010 and received an evaluation the day after and withdrew from 
practice. MAISTER was asked if he planned on continuing practicing as a pharmacist. He replied 
"yes" once/if PRN clears him. MAISTER said he would like to work in a non-dispensing role. 

MAISTER was asked to explain in detail his knowledge of this complaint. He replied he 
wrote prescriptions for himself to have filled and was wrong. MAISTER said he was enrolled in 
PRN from 2002 through 2007 and continued to be in compliance until early June 2010. 

MAISTER said he had dental procedures which consisted of two root canals, extraction and 
bridge. He said he was prescribed Vicodin. MAISTER said at the end of June 2010 he was 
hospitalized for hypertension crisis and a minor stroke. He said he was also diagnosed with 
severe central and obstructed sleep apnea. MAISTER said while in the hospital he fell and injured 
his ankle and back and was given Vicodin while in the hospital and upon discharge. He said at 
this point is when his addiction took off. MAISTER said then he felt as though he needed the 
medication. He said his addiction was in charge and he did what he did. MAISTER said he wrote 
prescriptions for himself. MAISTER was asked how many prescriptions did hewrote. I-fe replied 
he wrote two prescriptions with one with a refill. 

MAISTER stated that he is sorry for what he did. He said he knows whathe needs to do to. 
stay clean and sober and is more than willing to do so. MAISTER said he will do what he needs to 
do to stay clean. 

Page 8 



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

LHEALT 
Charlie Crist Ann M, Viamonte Ros, M.D., MPH 
Governor State Surgeon General 

CASE SUMMARY 
BET 0 7 2010 

CONFIDENTIAL DOH/MQA 

Case No: 201019143 Jacksonville IS 

Please use this number in all correspondence with the Department concerning this matter. 

RESPONDENT INFORMATION 

License No: 34202 Profession: 2201 Pharmacist 
Name: James M Maister 
Address: 4810 DIAMONDS PALM LQOP 

Wesley Chapel, FL 33543 
Home Phone: 

SOURCE OF INFORMATION 

Department Of Health i os 2610 

Home Phone: 

By a— 
REPORTED INFORMATION 

Receive Date: 10/05/2010 Source Code: 5 Form Code: 1 

Responsible Party: halO7 Status Code: 10 Priority: 1 

Classification Code: Incident Date: 09/30/2010 

Patient Name: 

Possible Code(s): 33 

Summary: 
Possible violation of, s. 465.016(1)(d)2.3.(e)(i)(m)(r), F.S., s. 456.072(1)(a)(m)(z), F.S. 

On 9/30/10 Subject (PS 34202) was arrested for felony under Ch 893.13(7)(a)9. FS (Obtain 
controlled substance by fraud). Subject may be impaired. Analyzed by: Leo Paulson, 10/5/10 

1! CONFIDENTIAL 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-75 +Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 . 850-245-4339 Voice • 
850-488-0796 Fax 



OL. I I mica. VVCaiCy JCL UI rage i ut 

aai&-J t?/19 

Nc 
ttmn 

October 1,2010 

Wesley Chapel pharmacist accused of fraud 
Times staff 

WESLEY CHAPEL - A pharmacist is accused of using stolen and forged prescription forms to get hydrocodone. 

James M. Maister, 45, of Wesley Chapel was arrested Thursday and charged with three counts of attempting to 
obtain controlled substances by fraud. 

The Florida Department of Health shows Maister's pharmacy license is clear and active and that he works at 
University Community Hospital. 

Documents state Maister's license was revoked in 2002 for fraudulently obtaining Buprenex, a narcotic controlled 
substance, and his license was reinstated in 2003. 

Maisters told a deputy he hss an addiction problem and has enrolled in a treatment program, according to a report 
from the Pasco County Sheriffs Office. 

He was released from the Pasco County jail on $6,000 bail. 

St. Petersburg Times 

• 2010 St. Petersburg Times. Permission granted for up to 5 cOpies. tights reserved. 
You mayforward this article orgetadditional permisiions by typing http: //licerse.icopvright.ri et/3. intoany 
web browser. St. Petersburg Times and St. Petersburg Times logos are registered trademarks of St. Petersburg Times . The iCopyright logo is a 

registered trademark of copyright, nc. 

http://license.icopyright.net/user/viewFreeUse.act?füidMTAxOTAxNji 3D 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

Charlie CrIst 
Governor 

October 8, 2010 
CONFIDENTIAL : 
James M. Maister, R.Ph. 
4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543 

Case Number: P32010-19143 

Dear Mr. Maister: 

We are currently investigating the enclosed document received by the Department of Health. This 
investigation was after it was determined that you may have violated thePharmacy Practice 
Act, 

Within 20 days of receiving this letter, you may: 

* submit a written response to the address below; or 
* call our office to schedule an interview. 

Please provide a copy of your curriculum vitae and identify your specialty even if you choose not to 
submit a response. Include the above-referenced case number in any correspondence that you send. 

Florida law requires that this case and all investigative information remain confidential until 10 days 
after the Probable Cause Panel has determined that a violation occurred or you give up the right to 
confidentiality. Therefore, the contents of the investigation cannot be disclosed to you or the general 
public. 

You may make a written request for a copy of the investigative file and it will be sent to you when the 
investigation is complete. You may submit an additional written response to the information in the 
investigative file within 20/45 days of receipt. Your response (if one is provided), along with the 
information in the file, will be considered byihe panel when determining whether a formal 
administrative complaint should be filed in this matter. 

You are not required to answer any questions or give any statement, and you have the right to be 
represented by an attomey. It is not possible to estimate how long it will take to complete this 
investigation because the circumstances of each investigation differ. 

The mission of the Division of Medical Quality Assurance is to protect the public through healthcare 
licensure, enforcement and information. If you have any questions, please call us at 813-871-7443. 

2NRT 
Enclosure ! CONFIDENTIAL 

nv Form 354 Division of Medical Quality Assurance, Investigative Services Unit 
Created 06/07 6800 North Dale Mabry, Suite 220, Tampa, Florida 33614 
Revised 10/07 813/873-4777 

Visit us online at doh, state. fi. us * MQA Enforcement 

Ana M. Viamonte Ros, M.D., MPH. 

- 

State Surgeon General 

Victor R. Troupe 
Medical Malpractice Investigator 



Charlie Crist 
Governor 

Case No: 201019143 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Ma M. Viamonte Ros, MD.. MPH 
State Surgeon General fl a. a an 'a 

OCT 0 7 2010 

DOHIMQA le IS 

Please use this number in all correspondence with the Department concerning this matter. 

RESPONDENT INFORMATION 

License No: 
Name: 
Address: 

Home Phone: 

34202 
James M Maister 
4810 DIAMONDS PALM LOOP 
Wesley Chapel, FL 33543 

SOURCE OF INFORMATION 

Name: Department Of Health 
Address: 
Home Phone: 

REPORTED INFORMATION 

Receive Date: 1010612010 
Responsible Party: halO7 
Classification Code: 

Source Code: 5 

Status Code: 10 
Incident Date: 09/30/2010 

Form Code: I 
Priority: 1 

Patient Name: 

Possible Code(s): 33 

Summary: 
Possible violation of, s. 465.016(1)(d)2.3,(e)(i)(m)(r), F.S., s. 466.072(1)(a)(m)(z), F.S. 

On 9/30/10 Subject (PS 34202) was arrested for felony under Ch 893.13(7)(a)9. FS (Obtain 
controlled substance by fraud). Subject maybe impaired. Analyzed by: Leo Paulson, 10/5/10 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-75 •Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 . 850-245-4339 Voice • 
850-488-0796 Fax 

CASE SUMMARY 

Profession: 2201 Pharmacist 

) 

u 



M. limes: Wesley Chapel pharmacist accused of fraud 

- 

Page 1 of 1 

It 
October 1,2010 

Wesley Chape' pharmacist accused of fraud 
Times staff 

WESLEY CHAPEL - A pharmacist is accused of using stolen and forged prescription forms to get , 
James M. Maister, 45, of Wesley Chapel was arrested Thursday and charged with three counts of attempting to 
obtain controlled substances by fraud. 

The Florida Department of Health shows Maister's pharmacy license is clear and active and that he works at 
University Community Hospital. 

Documents state Maister's license was revoked in 2002 for fraudulently obtaining Buprenex, a narcotic controlled 
substance, and his license was reinstated in 2003. 

Maister's told a deputy he has an addiction problem and has enrolled in a treatment program, according to a report 
from the Pasco County Sheriffs Office. 

He was released from the Pasco County jail ' $6,000 bail. 

St Petersburg Times 

2010 St. Petersburg Times. Permission aranted for up to 5 copies. All rights reserved. 
You may forward thisarhcle orgetadditional permissions bytyping http: :L:;opvriuh .c"t/3. SE I 125.i52 intoarry 
web browser. St. Petersburg Times and St. Petersburg Times logos are registered trademarks of St. Petersburg Times The copyright logo is a 

registered trademark of Copyright, Inc. 

http://license.icopyright.net/user viewFreeUse.act?fuid=MTAxOTAxNji /o3D 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


CERTIFIED 
DOCUMENT 

COMPLAINT #: 

INVESTIGATOR: 

2010 - 

Victor R. Troupe 

** CERTIFIED DOCUMENT — DO NOT WRITE ON IT 

: 
Page 

14 

170-1 72 

Five of Six 
Zr,nThes I 29 7010 

HO 

PATIENT: 

SUBJECT: JAMES M. . R.Ph 



PAT FRANK 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

HILLSBOROUGH COUtITY, FLORIDA 

] IN THE CIRCUIT COURT IN THE COUNTY COURT 
OF THE THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN FOR HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

DIVISION: [ ] FELONY 1 CIVIL INFRACTION 

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE OF DISPOSITION 

DEFENDANT'S NAME: 

DATE OF BIRTH: SOCIALSECURITY#: C')CXX— XY— 

CASE NUMBER: gg fl&'4591D1V1S10N: r OFFENSE DATE: IUQ 

95 
I 

\j 

COURT DISPOSITION 

Judge: çhrn \O Disposition Date: O3 Count#: 

________________ 

Plea; ]guilty 1 not guilty [ ] nolo-contendere €fl 
Finding: [ I guilty [ ] not guilty 

Adjudication of guilty [ ] Adjudication withheld I ] Dismissed [ ] Not guilty 

J Other: 

SENTENCE: 

OTHER DISPOSITION 

State Attorney - No file Letter of Release 

) Admitted Civil infraction by payment of civil penalty (Florida Statute/County Ordinance/Municipal Ordinance) 

Arrest Affidavit or te charging document is no longer available in accordance with the retention 
Requirements as set forth in the "Rules of Judicial Administration 2.075. 

This is to certify that the information listed above is true and co ec 
lc_ t—. ,- ) 

Witness my Hand and Official Seal the cJ day of L'LM , '. 
•. 

PAT FRANK . 

CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT -.• 

SEAL lerk - 05) 



PAT FRANK 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY. FLORIDA 
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT N THE COUNTY COURT 

OF THE THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

DIVISION: 1 FELONY ] CIVIL INFRACTION 

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE OF DISPOSITION 

DEFENDANTS NAME: 

DATEOFBIRTH: SOCIALSECURITY#: c)CX )(— — 
CASE NUMBER: \DIVISION: OFFENSE DATE: 10(o 

Pbj fl')\ Ufl%'tY1AQ55 Q1I1U114 

COURT DISPOSITION 

Judge: O\Tlt{ Disposition Date: O(D Count#: 

________________ 

Plea: [ ] guilty [ ] not guilty 

Finding: [ ] guilty [ ] not guilty 

Adjudication of guilty withheld I ] Dismissed [ ] NolIe-Prosequi [ ] Not guilty 

Other: 

€o - 

OTHER DISPOSITION 

State Attorney - No file Letter of Release 

Admjjted Civil infraction by pa9ment of civil penalty (Florida Statute/County Ordinance/Municipal Ordinance) 

irninal Arrest Affidavit or te charging document is no longer available in accordance with the retention 
Requirements as set forth in the "Rules of Judicial Administration 2.075. 

This is to certify that the information listed above is true 

and Offic1aI Seal the 

_______ 

day of c 
PAT FRANK 
CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT 

SEAL 
Deputy clerk 

() 
I 674(Rev.0 I - i 



PAT FRANK 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA 
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT I'IN THE COUNTY COURT 

OF THE THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

DIVISION: [ ]FEL.ONY [ ] CIVIL INFRACTION 

CLERWS CERTIFICATE OF DISPOSITION 

DEFENDANT'S NAME: 'tALU,Ae{, T\hfl\Qm n*k\-VU3 
DATEOFBIRTH: \('1(o5 SOCIALSECURITY#: YX— Y..XXX 
CASE NUMBER: 0C0f3°4DIVISION: OFFENSE DATE: 

IORDINANCE:F5 
I 

flh-k j)(O(TL uOv"H'11QTh5 

COURT DISPOSITION 

Judge: iiiPoR Disposition Date: 'Y5 (u Count#: 

_________________ 

Plea: j guilty [ ] nolo-contendere 

Finding: [ guilty [ ] not guilty 

Adjudication of guilty JAdjudication withheld [ ] Dismissed [ ] Not guilty 

Other: 

]SENTENCE: 

OTHER DISPOSITION 

State Attorney - No file Letter of Release 

Admitted Civil infraction by payment of civil penalty (Florida Statute/County Ordinance/Municipal Ordinance) 

Arrest Affidavit or te charging document is no longer available in accordance with the retention 
Requirements as set forth in the "Rules of Judicial Administration 2.075. 

This is to certify that the information listed above is true and correct. 

Withess my Hand and Official Seal the 

________ 

day of 

___________________________________, 

20 

PAT FRANK 
CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT 

SEAL 

1674(Rev0I- ) 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


. . 
IN THE CIRCUIT/COUNTY COURT OF TIlE SIXTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA IN AN!) FOR PASCO COUNTY 

9901 I2OMMAI3S 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

V BATTERY DV. l°M 

JAMES MMiHEW MAISTER 
SPN 00318670 

NO INFORMATION 

The Slate Attorney, having taken testimony tinder oath at a Slate Attorney 

investigation, concludes that the facts and circumstances revealed do not warrant 

prosecution at this time. 

Dated this f. day of 1999. 

cCABE. State Attorney 
Sixth of Florida 

0. VanAjIen 
State Attorney 

NI-A 

STATE OF FLORIDA, COUNTY OF PASCO 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A 
TRUE AND CORRECT COPY OF THE DOCUMENT 
ON FILE OR OF PUBLIC RECORD IN THIS OFFICE 
WITNESS MY HAND AND OFflCIAL SEAL THIS 

DAY QE 2 0/0 
PAULA S. O'NElL, CLERK & COMPTROLLER 

DEPUTYCLERK 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naton 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201214458 

DINO JOSE ANTONIONI, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: DINO JOSE ANTONIONI 
15115 SW 54TH ST 
THE RESERVE AT HUNGTINTON 
MIRAMAR, FL 33027 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. Although the Respondent is not required to be present, 
it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan 
Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

a Executive Director 

/ 
OARD OF PHARMACY 
lorida Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 BakI Cypress Way, Bin ClO 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245.4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



flick Scott 
Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & Improve the health 

of all people in Florida through Integrated .iciin H Armstrong, MD, FACS 
stale, county & community efforts. Surgeon General & Secrelaly 

Vision: To be the healthiest State in the 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM: Kristal Beharry, Assistant General Counsel 

Hearing - No Disputed l Facts 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Dm0 Jose Antonioni, R.Ph. 

DOH Case Number 2012-14458 

DATE: August 27, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 

final agency action for the October 9, 2013, meeting of the board. The following 

information is proyided in this regard. 

Subject: Dma Jose Antonioni, R.Ph. 

Subjects Address of 15115 SW th Street 

Record: Miramar, FL 33027 
Enforcement Address: 15115 Sw th Street 

Miramar, FL 33027 

Additional Address: Dino Jose Antonioni, Register #14930-111 I D. Ray James 
Correctional Institution 
.O. Box 2000 
Folkston, GA 31537 

Subject's License No: 38504 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 29137 

Initial Licensure Date: 3/1/2004 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): , 
Section 456.072(1)(c), F.S.(2012 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: Griffin & Mesaros 
April 25, 2013 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Dma 3. Antonioni (Self Report) 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues of 

Florida Department of Health lth.Cofl 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecedon Services Unit IUER*lealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 oftlealth 
Express niaU address: 2585 Me chants Row — Suite ¶05 VOUTUBE: fldoh 

PHONE: /245-4444 • FAX 860)245-4683 



Material Fact for Final Order 
Administrative Complaint 
Molion to Assess Costs 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit 1 

Exhibit 2 
Board Notification Letters 
Election of Rights 
Prosecutor Document 
Supplemental Investigative Report with 
Exhibits 4/17/13 
Emergency Suspension Order with Attachments 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1 — 5 

DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES: 
Section 456.072(1)(c), P.S.— 

> Felony: $3,000 fine and one (1) year probation up to revocation 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: INFORMAL HEARING 

This is a one count Administrative Complaint alleging a violation of Section . 
Florida Statutes (2012), by being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of guilty or 

nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the 

practice of, or the ability to practice, pharmacy. 

On or about Mai-ch 27, 2013, in the United States District Court, Northern District of California; 

Respondent entered a plea of guilty to one count of conspiracy with intent to distribute 

Schedule Ill or IV controlled substances, a felony, in violation of 21 U.S.C. 846. Conspiracy 

with intent to distribute Schedule Ill or IV controlled substances is a crime that relates to the 

practice of pharmacy or the ability to practice pharmacy. 

Respondent returned an Election of Rights electing an informal hearing. 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-14458 

DINO JOSE ANTONIONI, 

Respondent 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER AFTER HEARING NOT INVOLVING 
DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACTS 

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, by and through its undersigned counsel, 

and moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order in the above- 

styled cause on a date and time that has been determined and noticed by 

the Board. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner would state the following: 

1. Petitioner previously filed an Administrative Complaint against 

Respondent alleging that Respondent had violated the provisions of Florida 

Statutes, as set forth therein. The Department, by filing the Administrative 

Complaint, is seeking to discipline the Respondent's license to practice as a 

registered pharmacist, thereby affecting the Respondent's substantial 

interests. 



2. On or about April 29, 2013, Petitioner served Respondent with 

the Administrative Complaint via Respondent's address of record with the 

Department of Health. The Department, by serving the Respondent with 

the Administrative Complaint, provided the Respondent itten notice of its 

decision to seek discipline of the Respondent's license to practice as a 

registered pharmacist. 

3. The Respondent has filed an Election of Rights Form or other 

responsive pleading evincing, or has otherwise indicated, that Respondent 

does not dispute the material facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

4. There are no disputed issues of material fact to be resolved by 

the Board. 

5. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case shall be furnished to the Board to 

establish a prima fade case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Administrative Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, the parties respectfully request the Board of 

Pharmacy, after allowing the Respondent the opportunity to present oral 

and/or written evidence in mitigation of the Administrative Complaint, enter 



a Final Order imposing whatever discipline upon the Respondent's license 

that the Board deems appropriate. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John . Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 0078070 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 ext. 8218 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this day of 

2013, to: DINO JOSE ANTONIONI, 15115 

Southwest 54th Street, Miramar, FL 33027 and DINO JOSE 

ANTONIONI, REGISTER #14930-111, CI D. RAY JAMES, 

CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTION, P.O. BOX 2000, FOLKSTON, GA 

31537. 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 2 
v. CASE NO. 2012-14458 

DINO )OSE ANTONIONI, R.Ph., 

RESPONDENT. 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph., and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was a pharmacist within the state of Florida, having been 

issued license number Ps 38504. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 15115 Southwest th Street, 

Miramar, Florida 33027. 

4, At all material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was licensed to practke as a pharmacist in the State of Florida 

pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Stabites (2012). 

5. On or about August 31, 2010, in the United States District 

Court, Northern District of Cahfornia, an indictment was filed alleging that 

Respondent conspired to distribute more than forty-eight million dollars 

worth of controlled substances outside the scope of professional practice 

between in or about January 2006, and March 2008. Respondent was 

subsequently arrested in or about September 2010. 

6. On or about December 7, 2010, in the United States District 

Court, Northern District of California, a superseding indictment was filed 

charging Respondent with one count of conspiracy to distribute Schedule 

III and IV controlled substances in violation of 21 U.S.C. 846; one count of 

attempted possession with intent to distribute and distribution of Schedule 

II and IV controlled substances in violation 21 U.S.C. ss. 846, 841(a)(1), 

(b)(1)(D) & (b)(2); one count of conspiracy to launder money in violation 

Department of Health v. Jose MtanFonl, R,Pli. 
Case Ilumber 20L2-14458 



of 18 U.S.C. 1956(h) & (a)(2)(A); and one count of international money 

laundering in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1956(a)(2)(A). 

7. On or about March 27, 2013, in the United States District Court, 

Northern District of California, in case number CR-1O-00642-O11, 

Respondent entered a plea of guilty to one count of conspiracy with intent 

to distribute Schedule III or IV controlled substances, a felony, in violation 

of 21 U.S.C. 846. 

8. Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob 

contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which 

relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, pharmacy constitutes 

grounds for disciplinary action. 

9. Conspiracy with intent to distribute Schedule UI or IV controlled 

substances is a crime that relates to the praclice of pharmacy or the ability 

to practice pharmacy. 

10. As set forth above, Respondent entered a plea of guilty to one 

count of conspiracy with intent to distribute Schedule H or IV controlled 

substances, a felony, in violation of 21 U.S.C. 846, in the United States 

District Court, Northern District of California. 

Health V. Cirto Jose Mtonionl, tPh. 3 
Case Hunter 2012-144% 



11. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

456.072(lXc), florida Statutes (2012), by being convicted or found guilty 

of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, reganiless of 

adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or 

the ability to practice, pharmacy. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

Departientof Health V. Dk,o )ose R.Ph. 4 
Case Number 2012-14458 



SIGNED this 25 day of . 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health to 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 

FILED 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 

CLERK Angel SaBdCTh Florida Bar 0078070 
APR 2 5 Telephone: (850) 245-1111 

• 

Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

PCP: 
PCP Members: If' Gdrr;vt ,MeSaro5 

Department of Healthy. Dine 3ose Mtonioni, R.PtI. 

Case Nintha 2012-14458 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented Dy counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this 0 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline Imposed. 

of Health v. Dine Jose Pntonlonl, R.Ph. 6 
Case Nunter 2012-1+45B 



Pharmacy 

action and 

2. 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTK, 

V. 

DINO JOSE ANTOPIIONI, R.Ph. 

Respondent. 
I 

CASE NO. 2012-14458 

MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION ) 

COMES NOW, the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry of a 

Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the investigation 

and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 456.072(4), 

Florida Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states the following: 

1. the Board of At its next regularly scheduled meeting, 

will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary 

will enter a Final Order therein. 

Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or after 



July 1, 2001, pursuant to this section or discipline 
imposed through final order, or citation, entered 
on or after July 1, 2001, for a violation of any 
practice act, the board, or the department when 
there is not board, shall assess costs related to the 
investigation and prosecution of the case. Such 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution 
include, but are not limited to, salaries and 
benefits of personnel, costs related to the time 
spent by the attorney and other personnel working 
on the case, and any other expenses incurred by 
the department for the case. The board, or the 
dep artment when there is no board, shall 
determine the amount of costs to be assessed 
after its consideration of an affidavit of itemized 
costs and any written objections . . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted in 

costs in the total amount of $2247.56, based on the following itemized 

statement of costs: 

____________ 
*****CosttoDate***** 

I 

Hours 
I 

Costs 

Complaint: 
[ 

1 
I 

1 
1 

1 1 
Legal: 1 
Compliance: 

[ 
0.151 4.83 

ISub Total: 30.85 $2247.56 

Expenses to 
Date: 

00 
. 

Prior 1 
$0.00 

Total Costs to 
Date: 

$2247.56 

2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $1,395.96 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit (Exhthit A). 

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of the 

costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests that the 

Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based upon its 

consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any timely-filed 

written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and 

in the amount of $1,395.96 as supported by competent, assess costs 

substantial evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any other 

discipline imposed by the Board and is in accordance with Section 

.072(4), Florida Statutes. 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the Board 

of Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent 

in the amount of $1,395.96. 

3 



(6. 
DATED this j day of 

_______________. 

2011. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry ) 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 0078070 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 ext. 8218 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing Motion to Assess Cost has been provided by U.S. mail this 
Lr day of , 2013, to: DINO JOSE ANTONIONI, 

15115 Southwest 54th Street, Miramar, FL 33027 and DINO JOSE 

ANTONIONI, REGISTER #14930-111, CI D. RAY JAMES, 

CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTION, P.O. BOX 2000, FOLKSTON, GA 

31537. 

Kristal Behàrry 
Assistant General Counsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH), 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 201 2-14458 (Department of Health v. DINO JOSE 
ANTONIONI, R. Ph.) are TWO THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FORTY- 
SEVEN DOLLARS AND FIFTY-SIX CENTS ($2,247.56). 

6) The costs for DOH case numbers 201 2-14458 (Department of Health 
v. DINO JOSE ANTONIONI, R. Ph.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost 
Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 2012-14458 
(Department of Health v. DINO JOSE ANTONIONI, R. Ph.) are 
detailed in Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense 
Report and receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 

EXHIBIT 

lof2 



keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 

________________, 

2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is personally known to me. 

TOWANDA B. BURNETT 
S CommisSi # EE 838342 

Name of Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201214458 

s i 'Ji. a 

Subject's Name: ANTONIONI. DINO JOSE 

Cost to Date 

L [ 
Hours Costs 

2.70 $155.56 ion: [ S1,235.57 

Legal: 8.00' 
F 

S851.60 

j 
0.15' 

[ 
$4.83 

H 
Sub Total: 

I 
30.85 1 

Expenses to Date: 
1 1 

.OoI 
Prior Amount: 

I ) 

Costs to Date: I 1 L 

EXHIBIT 

5/1 5/2013 



D
iv

is
io

n 
ci

 
rn

C
O

N
F

JD
E

N
flA

L*
**

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 la
in

t 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

12
14

45
8 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
05

/1
5/

20
13

 
P

ag
e 

1 
of

 3 

St
af

f C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 H

ou
rs

 
St

af
f 

R
at

e 
C

os
t 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
at

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

IC
O

M
PL

IA
N

C
E

 M
A

N
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 U
N

IT
 

I 

U
C

27
 

0.
05

 
$3

2.
13

 
$1

.6
1 

10
/2

9/
20

12
 

13
7 

IT
Y

D
O

W
N

G
R

A
D

E
S/

U
PG

R
A

D
E

S 
U

C
27

 
0.

05
 

$3
2.

13
 

$1
.6

1 
04

/0
8/

20
13

 
13

7 
PR

IO
R

IT
Y

 D
O

W
N

G
R

A
D

E
S/

U
PG

R
A

D
E

S 

H
C

27
 

0.
05

 
$3

2.
13

 
$1

.6
1 

04
/1

5/
20

13
 

12
5 

L
IC

E
N

SE
ST

A
T

U
SC

H
A

N
G

E
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

0.
15

 
$4

.8
3 

IC
O

N
SI

JM
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

U
N

IT
 

I 

13
6 

1.
00

 
$5

7.
62

 
$5

7.
62

 
I0

/0
1/

20
12

 
78

 
IA

L
R

E
V

IE
W

A
N

D
A

N
A

L
Y

SI
SO

FC
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

13
6 

0.
20

 
$5

7.
62

 
$1

1.
52

 
10

/0
1/

20
12

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
FI

L
E

 
13

6 
0.

70
 

$5
7.

62
 

$4
0.

33
 

10
/0

2/
20

12
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
C

A
SE

FI
L

E
 

H
A

13
6 

0.
50

 
$5

7.
62

 
$2

8.
8!

 
!0

/0
3/

20
I2

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 
H

A
13

6 
0.

L
0 

$5
7.

62
 

$5
.7

6 
12

 
14

4 
C

SU
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

1A
L

36
 

0.
20

 
$5

7.
62

 
$1

1.
52

 
10

/1
6/

20
12

 
14

4 
C

SU
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

2.
70

 
51

55
.5

6 

IG
A

T
IV

E
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S 
U

N
IT

 
I 

L
L

98
 

0.
30

 
$6

1.
19

 
$1

8.
36

 
10

/0
8/

20
12

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
19

8 
0.

20
 

$6
1.

19
 

$1
2.

24
 

10
/0

8/
20

12
 

4 
IN

E
1N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

19
8 

1.
10

 
$6

1.
19

 
$6

7.
31

 
10

/0
8/

20
12

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

L 
T

IM
E

 
19

2 
1.

50
 

$6
1.

19
 

$9
1.

79
 

10
/0

8/
20

12
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
L

I9
2 

0.
50

 
$6

1.
19

 
$3

0.
60

 
10

/0
8/

20
12

 
76

 
R

E
PO

R
T

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 
19

2 
1.

50
 

$6
1.

19
 

$9
1.

79
 

10
/1

0/
20

12
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
L

19
2 

4.
50

 
$6

1.
19

 
$2

75
.3

6 
10

/1
0/

20
12

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 
19

2 
1.

00
 

$6
1.

19
 

$6
1.

19
 

10
/1

1/
20

12
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
D

JV
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

L
19

2 
0.

50
 

$6
1.

19
 

$3
0.

60
 

10
/I 

L
12

01
2 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
19

2 
0.

70
 

$6
1.

19
 

$4
2.

83
 

10
/1

2/
20

12
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

L
I9

2 
0.

50
 

$6
1.

19
 

$3
0.

60
 

10
/1

5/
20

12
 

76
 

R
E

PO
R

T
 P

R
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 

__
__

__
 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 - 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 

- F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 



C
O

 N
F 

ID
E

 ! A
L

 
M

ed
ic

al
 O

uc
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

N
k 
\ 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

14
45

8 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
05

/1
5/

20
13

 
P

ag
e 

2 
of

3 

S
ta

F
f C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

L
19

2 
0.

50
 

$6
1.

19
 

$3
0.

60
 

10
/1

5/
20

12
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

19
2 

2.
50

 
$6

1.
19

 
$1

52
.9

8 
10

/1
6/

20
12

 
76

 
R

E
PO

R
T

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 
L

19
2 

0.
50

 
$6

1.
19

 
$3

0.
60

 
10

/1
7/

20
12

 
76

 
R

E
PO

R
T

 P
R

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

19
2 

0.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

1.
99

 
01

/1
0/

20
13

 
6 

SU
PP

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
17

5 
2.

50
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
59

.9
5 

04
/1

7/
20

13
 

10
0 

SE
R

V
IC

E
 O

F 
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
S,

 S
U

B
PO

E
N

A
S,

 N
O

T
IC

E
 T

O
 C

E
A

SE
 

17
5 

1.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$7

6.
78

 
04

/1
7/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
PO

R
T

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

20
.0

0 
$1

,2
35

.5
7 

I?
!W

S
E

C
U

T
IO

 N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 S

 U
N

IT
 

I 

SA
 

0.
60

 
$1

02
.4

1 
$6

1.
45

 
10

/0
4/

20
12

 
25

 
R

E
V

L
E

W
C

A
SE

FI
L

E
 

H
LL

9I
B

 
0.

60
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$6
6.

94
 

10
/0

4/
20

12
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
C

A
SE

FI
L

E
 

IL
L

9I
B

 
0.

40
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$4
2.

54
 

10
/2

4/
20

12
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
C

A
SE

FI
L

E
 

H
L

L
9I

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
10

/2
4/

20
12

 
70

 
C

O
N

FE
R

E
N

C
E

S 
W

IT
H

 L
A

W
Y

E
R

S 
IB

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

10
/2

5/
20

12
 

26
 

PR
E

PA
R

E
O

R
R

E
V

IS
E

M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 
H

L
L

9O
A

 
0.

40
 

S 
10

6.
35

 
$4

2.
54

 
10

/3
0/

20
 1

2 
78

 
IN

IT
IA

L
 R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

SI
S 

O
F 

C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

O
A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

12
/0

5/
20

12
 

60
 

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S 

H
L

L
9O

A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
01

/1
6/

20
13

 
60

 
M

IS
C

E
L

L
A

N
E

O
U

S 
H

L
L

9O
A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

03
/0

7/
20

13
 

60
 

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S 

O
A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

03
/2

9/
20

13
 

60
 

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S 

}I
L

L
9O

A
 

0.
30

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$3

1.
91

 
04

/0
4/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

C
A

SE
FI

L
E

 
H

L
L

9O
A

 
0.

70
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$7
4.

45
 

04
/0

5/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
SE

 F
IL

E
 

U
L

L
9O

A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
04

/0
5/

20
 1

3 
26

 
PR

E
PA

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 M

E
M

O
R

A
N

D
U

M
 

U
L

L
9O

A
 

1.
50

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

59
.5

3 
04

/0
5/

20
13

 
81

 
E

SO
/E

R
O

 
O

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
04

/0
5/

20
 13

 
70

 
C

O
N

FE
R

E
N

C
E

S 
W

IT
H

 L
A

W
Y

E
R

S 
H

L
L

9O
A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

04
/1

0/
20

13
 

E
SO

/E
R

O
 

IL
L

9O
A

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

04
/1

6/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
C

A
SE

FI
L

E
 

H
L

L
9O

A
 

1.
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

16
.9

9 
04

/1
6/

20
13

 
81

 
E

SO
/E

R
O

 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

8.
00

 
$8

51
.6

0 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 



IA
L

**
* 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 C
os

t b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

14
45

8 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
ite

m
iz

ed
co

st
 

I 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
05

/1
5/

20
 13

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

P
ag

e 
3 

of
3 



D
iv

is
io

n 
ol

 
**

* 
C

 O
N

 F
 I

D
E

 N
 T

I 
A

L
 *

**
 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

JN
/1

L
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

05
/1

5/
20

 1
3 

Pa
ge

 I
 

of
 I 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

. 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
ite

m
iz

ed
ex

pe
ns

e 



Rick Scott 
Mission: I - I Governor 

To protect promote & improve the health j I 

of all people in Flodda through integrated 
I John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH I 

State Surgeon General & Seaetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

June 4,2013 

VIA U. S. MAIL 

0mb Jose Antonioni 
15115 Southwest th Street 
Miramar, FL 33027 

Re: DOH vs. Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph. 
DOH Case Number: 201 2-14458 

Dear Mr. Antonioni: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material 

fact, executed by you on May 14, 2013, concerning the above referenced case. This means that the 

facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction because, 

by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary case. Since you 

are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, you are not admitting the facts 

alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, you are agreeing not to contest these facts and to limit 

presentation to legal 1 if any, and to matters in mitigation or extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy, scheduled for August 14, 2013, at the Rosen Plaza Hotel, 9700 International Drive, 

Orlando, Florida 32819. Please be advised your case will be set at the convenience of the Department 
and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the date and time approximately two 
weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 

free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

Kilatal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

KB/cmn 

Florida Department of Health .lth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit TWITTER:HeaIThyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOKFLDepatnentofflealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 'FAX 8501245-4683 



Rick Scott 
Mission; I I Governor 
To protect promote & improve the health 

I 
- I 

of all people in through integrated 

I 

I 
John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH I 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the HeaithieGt State in the NaUon 

June 4, 2013 

VIA U.S. MAIL 

Dm0 Jose Antonioni, Register # 14930-111 
Cl D. Ray James 
Correctional Institution 

P.O. Box 2000 
Folkston, GA 31537 

Re: DOH vs. Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph. 
DOH Case Number 2012-14458 

Dear Mr. Antonioni: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material 
fact, executed by you on May 14, 2013, conceming the above referenced case. This means that the 
facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction because, 
by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary case. Since you 
are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, you are not admitting the facts 
alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, you are agreeing not to contest these facts and to limit 
presentation to legal argument, if any, and to matters in mitigation or extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy, scheduled for August 14,. 2013, at the Rosen Plaza Hotel, 9700 International Drive, 
Orlando, Florida 32819. Please be advised your case will be set at the convenience of the Department 
and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the date and time approximately two 
weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

?. 
Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

KB/cmn 

Florida Department of Health .com 
Office of the General Counsel' Prosecution Services Unit TWITIER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

YCUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 8501245-4444' FAX 8501245-4683 



lE I - Governor 

To protect promote & improve the health Y.. 
J 

H Annatrong, , FAGS of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community etfoils. State General & Secretary 

vision; To be the Healthiest State in the Nadon 

August 28, 2013 

VIA U.S. MAIL 

Dma Jose Antoniorti, Register # 14930-111 
Cl 0. Ray James 
Correctional Institution 
P.O. Box 2000 
Folkston, GA 31537 

Re: DON vs. Dine Jose Antonioni, R.Ph. 
DOH Case Number 2012-14458 

Dear Mr. Antonioni: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material 

fact, executed by you on May 14, 2013, concerning the above referenced case. This means that the 

facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction because, 

by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary case. Since you 

are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, you are not admitting the facts 

alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, you are agreeing not to contest these facts and to limit 

presentation to legal argument, if any, and to matters in mitigation or extenuation, 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 

Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9, 2013, at the Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, 

Panama City Beach, FL 32406. Please be advised your case will be set at the convenience of the 

Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the date and time 

approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

KB/cmn 

Florida Depaitnient of Health www.FlorldnHaalth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecudon Services Unit TWIT1tR:HaalthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cyprass Way, Sin C-65 'Tallahassee, Fl. 32399.1701 lealm 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row — Soite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/2454444 • FAX 850t2454883 



Mission: I Governor 

Rick Soon 

of all people in I John H. . FACS 
To protect, promcte & improve tie heath j 

state, county & community efforts. 

I 
HEALTH j 

General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State In the Naflon 

August 28, 2013 

VIA U.S. MAIL 

Dino Jose Antonioni 
15115 SW th Street 
Miramar, FL 33027 

Re: DOH vs. Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph. 
DOH Case Number 2012-14458 

Dear Mr. 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material 

fact, executed by you on May 14, 2013, concerning the above referenced case. This means that the 

facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction because, 

by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary case. Since you 

are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, you are not admitting the facts 

alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, yâu are agreeing not to contest these facts and to limit 

presentation to legal argument, if any, and to matters in mitigation or extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 

Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9,2013, at the Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, 

Panama City Beach, FL 32408. Please be advised your case will be set at the convenience of the 

Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the date and time 

approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 

free to contact this office. 

Sincerely. 

•Krislal•Beharry . 

Assistant General Counsel 

KB/cmn 

Florida Department of Health www. Florida a H oa it h .com 
Office of the General Counsel' Prosecubon Sentces unh 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, 8th s • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 leaJth 
Express mail addresS: 2585 Metdianls Row — Suite 105 YOIJTUSE: fidoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4683 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Federal bureau 01 rrisons 

Home Site Map Contact tie t 
- An agency of the - 

About 
I 

Inmate Locator Prison Facilities Careers inmate Matters 
I 

!Forms I 
Doing Business /Information 

inmate Locator 
Inmate Locator - Locate Federal inmates from 1982 to present 

About the inmate Locator 

Visiting - General Info t D 
- Visiling Hows Name Register # Age-Race-Sex Location 

- Wio Can Visit? - 

Background Checks 
1. 1NO JOSE ANTONIONI 14930-111 45-White-M 02-26-2014 0. RAY JAMES CORR 

- Circumstances 
FACL Ci 

- Visiting Room Procedures 
- Conjugal Visits 

Results 1 - 1 of 1 

- Locate inmates Released 
Before 1982 

isa 7ederar Inmate? New Search Privacy 

Related Documents 

About Inmate Locator Prison Facilities Careers Inmate Mailers licy/Forms Doing Business News/Information 

Accessibility Browser Requirements Disclaimer DOJ Legal Policies FOiA No FEAR Act Privacy Policy 

http://www.bop.gov/iloe2flnmateFinderServlet?TransactionNameSearch&fleediflgMoreLiS.. 6/4/2013 



Case3:10-cr-00642-CRB l22O Pagel of 7 

AO 2458 (Rev. 6/05 - Judgment in a Criminal Case 

United States District Court 
Northern District of California 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA JUDGMENT IN A CR&HNAL CASE 
V. 

DINO JOSE ANTONIONI USDC Case Number: CR-i 0-00642-011 CRB 
BOP Case Number: DCAN3 I 0CR000642-0 11 

USM Number. None 
Defendant's Attorney: Michael Shephard 

THE DEFENDANT: 

i] pleaded guilty to count: Ten of the Superseding . ] pleaded nob contendere to count(s) _which was accepted by the court, ] was found guilty on count(s) — after a plea of not guilty. 

The defendant is adjudicated guilty of these offense(s): 

Offense 
Title & Section Nature of Offense Ended Count 

21 U.S.C. § 846 Conspiracy with Intent to Distribute Schedule I or 2008 Ten 
IV Controlled Substances 

The defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through j.. of this judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the 
Sentencing Reform Act of 1984. 

(] The defendant has been found not guilty on count(s) 

x] All other counts are dismissed on the motion of the United States. 

IT IS ORDERED that the defendant must notify the United States attorney for this district within 30 days of any change of name, 
residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments imposed by thisjudgment are fully paid. If ordered 
to pay restitution, the defendant must the court and United States attorney of any material changes in economic circumstances. 

March 27,2013 
Date of Imposition of Judgment 

Signature of Judicial Officer 

Honorable Charles R. Breyer, Senior U. S. District Judge 
Name & Title of Judicial Officer 

March . 2013 
Date 

ffi CONFIDENTIAL 



Case3:1O-cr-00642-CRB o Page2 of 7 

AO 245B (Rev. 12103) (CAND Rev. 3107) Judgment in a Criminal Case Sheet 2-Imprisonment 

DEFENDANT: DINO JOSE ANTONIONI . Judgment - Page 2 of 7 

CASE NUMBER: CR-10-00642-01 1 CRB 

IMPRISONMENT 

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be 
imprisoned for a total term of nine . 
x] The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the defendant be 

designated to a facility near Miami, Florida to facilitate visitation with his family. 

] The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal. The appearance bond is hereby 
exonerated. 

] The defendant shall surrender to the United States Marshal for this district. 

] ] am 9 pmon_. 
]as notified by the United States Marshal. 

The appearance bond shalt be deemed exonerated upon the surrender of the defendant. 

x] The defendant shall surrender for service of sentence at the institution designated by the Bureau of 
Prisons: 

x] before 2:00 pm on May 28. 2013 (60 days). 
x] as notified by the United States Marshal. 
]as notified by the Probation or Pretrial Services Office. 

The appearance bond shall be deemed exonerated upon the surrender of the defendant. 

RETURN 
I have executed this judgment as follows: 

Defendant delivered on___________________________ to 

______________________________________ 

at 

_______________________________ 

, with a certified copy of this judgment. 

UNITED STATES MARSHAL 

By 
Deputy United States Marshal 

IL 



Case3:1O-cr-00642-CRB Documentl22O ,s3 Page3 of 7 

AD 245B (Rev. 12103) Judgment in a Criminal Case S-Supervised Release 

DEFENDANT: DINO JOSE ANTONIONI Judgment - Page 3 of 7 

CASE NUMBER: CR-1O-00642-O1 I CRB 

SUPERVISED RELEASE 

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of three (3') years - 

The defendant must report to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is released within 72 hours of release from the 
custody of the Bureau of Prisons, 

The defendant shall not commit another federal, state or local crime. 

The defendant shall not unlawfully possess a controlled substance. The defendant shall refrain from any unlawful use of a controlled 
substance. The defendant shall submit to one drug test within 15 days of release from imprisonment and two periodic drug tests 
the reafler. 
x] The above drug testing condition is suspended based on the courts determination that the defendant poses a low risk of future 

substance abuse. (Check if applicable.) 
a] The defendant shall not possess a firearm, ammunition, destructive device, or any other dangerous weapon. (Check if 

applicable.) 
x] The defendant shall cooperate in the collection of DNA as directed by the probation officer. (Check if applicable.) 
] The defendant shall register with the state sex offender registration agency in the state where the defendant resides, works, or 

is a student, as directed by the probation officer. (Check if applicable.) 
] The defendant shall participate in an approved program for domestic violence. (Check if applicable.) 

Ifthisjudgment imposes a fine or restitution, it is a condition of supervised release that the defendant pay in accordance with 
the Schedule of Payments sheet ofthisjudgment. 

The defendant must comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court as well as with any additional 
conditions in this judgment. 

STANDARD CONDITIONS 

1) The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without petmission of the court or probation officer; 
2) The defendant shall report to the probation officer in a manner and frequency directed by the court or probation officer; 
3) The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer; 
4) The defendant shall support his or her dependants and meet other family responsibilities; 
5) The defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation, unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or 

other acceptable reasons; 
6) The defendant shall notify the probation officer at least ten days prior to any change in residence or employment; 
7) The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute, or administer any 

controlled substance or any paraphernalia related to any controlled substances, except as prescribed by a physician; 
8) The defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administered; 
9) The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person 

convicted of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer; 
10) The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere, and shall permit confiscation 

of any contraband observed in plain view of the probation officer; 
I) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement 

officer; 
12) The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without the 

permission of the Court; and 
13) As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant's 

criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to 
confirm the defendant's compliance with such notification requirement. 

111 



Case3:1O-cr-00642-CRB o FiIedO3/29/A3 Page4 of 7 

AO 245B (Rev. 12103) Judgment in a Criminal Case Sheet 3 - Supervised Release 

DEFENDANT: DINO JOSE ANTONIONI Judgment - Page 4 of 7 
CASE NTJTvIBER: CR-1O-00642-O1 I CRB 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION 

1. The defendant shall pay any special assessment that is imposed by this judgment and that remains unpaid 
at the commencement of the term of supervised release. 

2. The defendant shall make an application to register as a drug offender pursuant to state law. 

3. The defendant shall submit his person, residence, office, vehicle, or any property under his control to a search. 
Such a search shall be conducted by a United States Probation Officer or any federal, state, or local law enforcement 
officer at any time with or without cause. Failure to submit to such a search may be grounds for revocation; the 
defendant shall warn any residents that the premises may be subject to searches. 

4. The defendant shall comply with the rules and regulations of the U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement 
and, if deported, not reenter the United States without the express consent of the Secretary of the Department of 
Homeland Security. Upon any reentry into the United States during the period of court ordered supervision, the 
defendant shall report to the nearest U.S. Probation Office within 72 hours. 

5. The defendant shall participate in the Location Monitoring Program as directed by the probation officer for a 
period of nine (9)months, and be monitored by electronic monitoring. Location monitoring shall be utilized to 
verifS' his or her compliance with home detention while on the program. The defendant is restricted to his or her 
residence at all times except for employment, education, religious services, medical appointments, substance abuse 
or mental health treatment, attorney visits, court appearances, court-ordered obligations, or other activities 
pre-approved by the probation officer. The cost will be determined by the probation officer at the time of 
enrollment in the program. 

In CONFWENIOAL 



Case3:10-cr-00642-CRB l22O Page5 of 7 

AO 2458 (Rev. ) - t in a Criminal Case - sheet 6- Schedute of Payments 

DEFENDANT: DINO JOSE ANTONIONI Judgment - Page 5 of 7 

CASE NUMBER: CR-1O-00642-O1 1 CRB 

CRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES 

The defendant must pay the total criminal monetary penalties under the schedule of payments on Sheet 6. 
Assessment Fine Restitution 

Totals: $ 100 N/A N/A 

] The determination of restitution is deferred until . An Amended Judgment in a Criminal Case (AO 245C) 
will be entered after such determination. 

] The defendant shall make restitution (including community restitution) to the following payees in the amount 
listed below. The defendant shall make all payments directly to the U.S. District Court Clerk's Office who will 
disburse payments to the payee. 

If the defendant makes a partial payment, each payee shall receive an approximately proportional payment 
unless specified otherwise in the priority order or percentage payment column below. However, pursuant to 18 

U.S.C. § 3664(i), all nonfederal victims must be paid before the United States is paid. 

Name of Payee Total Loss* Restitution Ordered Priority or Percentage : 
] Restitution amount ordered pursuant to plea agreement $ — 

] The defendant must pay interest on restitution and a fine of more than $2,500, unless the restitution or fine is 
paid in full before the fifteenth day after the date of the judgment, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f). All of the 
payment options on Sheet 6, may be subject to penalties for delinquency and default, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 

36 12(g). 

] The court detennined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest, and it is ordered that: 

the interest requirement is waived for the [ ] fine [ ] restitution, 

the interest requirement for the [ fine [ I restitution is modified as follows: 

Findings forthe total amount of losses are required under Chapters 109A, ItO, I bA, and I 13A of Title IS foroffenses committed on or after September 13, 1994, 
but before April 23, 1996. 

UI CONFIDENTIAL 



Case3:10-cr-00642-CRB o ,..3 Page6 of 7 

AC 245B (Rev. 12/03) - in a Criminal Case - sheet 6-Schedule of Pawnents 

DEFENDANT: DINO JOSE ANTONIONI Judgment - Page 6 of 7 

CASE NUMBER: CR-10-00642-01 1 CRB 

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS 

Having assessed the defendant's ability to pay, payment of the total criminal monetary penalties are due as 
follows: 

A a] Lump sum payment of $100 due immediately, balance due 

1 notlaterthan__, or 

] inaccordancewith( )C,( )D,( )E, ( )F(x)Gor( )H beiow;or 

B ] Payment to begin immediately (may be combined with ( ) C, ( ) D, or ( ) F below); or 

C J Payment in equal (e.g. weekly, monthly, quarterly) installments of$ — over a period of_ (e.g., months 
or years), to commence — (e.g., 30 or 60 days) after the date of this judgment; or 

D ] Payment in equal (e.g. weekly, monthly, quarterly) installments of$ — over a period of_ (e.g., months 
or years), to commence — (e.g., 30 or 60 days) after release from imprisonment to a term of supervision; 
or 

£ ] Payment during the term of supervised release will commence within (e,g, 30 or 60 days) after release 
from imprisonment. The court will set the payment plan based on an assessment of the defendant's ability 
to pay at that time; or 

F 1 Special instructions regarding the payment of criminal monetary penalties: 

G. xJ In Custody special instructions: Payment of criminal monetary penalties is due during imprisonment at 
the rate of not less than $25.00 per quarter and payment shall be through the Bureau of Prisons Inmate 
Financial Responsibility Program. Criminal monetary payments shall be made to the Clerk ofU.S. District 
Court, 450 Golden Gate Ave., Box 36060, San Francisco, CA 94102 

H. ] Out of Custody special instructions: It is further ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States 
a special assessment of $ and a fine of $ which shall be due immediately. If incarcerated, payment of 
criminal monetary payment is due during imprisonment and payment shall be through the Bureau of 
Prisons Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Criminal monetary payments shall be made to the Clerk 
of U.S. District Court, 450 Golden Gate Ave., Box 36060, San Francisco, CA 94102. 

Unless the court has expressly ordered otherwise, if this judgment imposes imprisonment, payment of criminal 
monetary penalties is due during imprisonment. All criminal monetary penalties, except those payments made 
through the Federal Bureau ofPrisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, are made to the clerk of the court. 

The defendant shall receive credit for all payments previously made toward any criminal monetary penalties 
imposed. 

] Joint and Several 

Payments shall be applied in the following order: (I) assessment, (2) restitution principal, (3) restitution interest, (4) fine principal, (5) fine interest, (6) community 
restitution, (7) penalties, and (8) costs, including cost of prosecution and court costs. 

111 



Case3:1O-cr-00642-CRB l22O ,...3 Page7 of 7 

AC 2458 (Rev. 12/03) - Judgment in a Criminal Case - sheet 6- Schedule of Payments 

DEFENDANT: DINO JOSE ANTONIONI Judgment - Page 7 of 7 

CASE NUMBER: CR- 10-00642-011 CRB 

Defendant and co- Case Numbers Total Amount Joint and Several Corresponding 
defendant Names (including 

defendant number) 
Amount Payee (if 

appropriate) 

] The defendant shall pay the cost of prosecution. 

] The defendant shall pay the following court cost(s) 

x] The defendant shall forfeit the defendants interest in the following property to the United States: 
Money Judgment in the amount of $300,000. 

] The Court gives notice that this case involves other defendants who may be held jointly and 
severally liable for payment of all or part of the restitution ordered herein and may order such 
payment in the fUture, but such future orders do not affect this defendant's responsibility for 
the full amount of the restitution ordered. 

Payments shall be applied in the following order: (I) assessment, (2) restitution principal, (3) reStitution intereSt, (4) fine principal, (5) fine intereSt, (6) community 
restitution, (7) penalties, and (8) costs, including cost of prosecution and court Costs. 

UI CONFWENPAL 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Fort Lauderdale Date of Case: 10/03/2012 Case Number: PS 2012-14458 

Subject: 
DINO JOSE ANTONIONI, 
15115 Southwest th Street 
Miramar, Florida 33027 
(954) 397-1881 

Source: 
DINO JOSE ANTONIONI, RPh 
15115 Southwest Street 
Miramar, Florida 33027 
(954) 397-1881 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
PS 38504 Pharmadst Pharmacy 4/17/2013 

Period of Investigation: 

04/16/2013 - 4/17/2013 

Type of Report: 

SUPPLEMENTAL #1 

Alleqed Violation: SEE FINAL REPORT 

Synopsis: 

This SUPPLEMENTAL was predicated upon a PSU Request from Department of Health Assistant 

ANTONIONI. 
KRISTAL BEHARRY, requesting service of Emergency 

On April 17, 2013, this Investigator served the Emergency Suspension Order to ANTONIONI by 
leaving a copy to his wife at his home address. 

Related Case: N/A 

-a 
(4 

rn 
C) 
rn 

r 

Investigator/Date: 4/17/2013 

LI75 

Approv /Date: 17/2613 

APRi 92013 Investigative Supervisor i. Medical Malpractice Investigator 

Distribution: HOJI5U 

INV FORM 300 02/08 
1 

General Counsel Suspension Order on 



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

JiEALT 
PSLJ REQUEST FORM 

FROM: Melba L. Apellaniz, RSII for Kristal 
Beharry, Esq. 

TO: Patricia Callahan 

Date: 4/16/2013 TO: CSU 

Phone #: (850) 245-4640 Ext. 8223 CC: Yvanne Gustave 

Case Number: 2012-14458 Board: Pharmacy 
Subject: Dino José Antonioni, R.Ph. HL Code:h1146a 
Requested Completion Date: ASAP 

Status: 90 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Z Process Service* (Activity Code I 60) 

Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 

fl Deficiency in Investigative Work ( Activity Code ISO) 

Details: Please hand serve attached ESO/ERO. Thanks. 

9iie following additional information is needed for each service request 

Last Known Address: 15115 SW th Street, The Reserve At Huntington, Miramar, FL 33027; Last Known Name & 
Phone Number: Dino José Antonioni, R.Ph.; (954) 397-1881; Last Known Place of Employment & Address if 
Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl Nofl; If Yes, When? 
Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service request is being sent 
YES fl*'I' No NOTE All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate field office 

YES, please send a copy of the original Investigative Reportwithout . 
INY FORM 376, Revised 1/12. 10/11,6/10,06109,4/09, I I/OS Created 4/05 

t ji 
ISUJCSU) RESPONSE: 
fl Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed (Activitx4ode 162) 

fl Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 2012-14458 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATiVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS . 2 

I. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

IV. EXHIBITS 

Si-i. PSU Request and Attachments 3-9 

Si-2. Affidavit of Service 10 

INV FORM 300 7/02 2 



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

J{EALT 
PSI! REQUEST FORM 

FROM: Melba L. Apellaniz, RSII for Kristal TO: Patricia Caflahan 
Beharry, Esq. 

Date: 4/16/2013 TO: CSU 

Phone #: (850) 245-4640 Ext. 8223 CC: Yvanne Gustave 

Case Number 2012-14458 Board: Pharmacy 
Subject: Dino José Antonioni, R.Ph, HL Code:h1146a 
Requested Completion Date: ASAP 

Status: 90 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Process Service* (Activity Code 160) 

fl Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 

fl Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code ISO) 

Details: Please hand serve attached ESOIERO. Thanks. 

*The following additional information is needed for each service request 

Last Known Address: 15115 SW Street, The Reserve At Huntington, Miramar, FL 33027; Last Known Name & 
Phone Number Dino José Antonioni, R.Ph.; (954) 397-1881; Last Known Place of Employment & Address if 
Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl Nofl; If Yes, When? 
Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service request is being sent 
YES No NOTE All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate field office 

YES. please-send a copy of the original investigative . 
INV FORM 376, Revised 1112. 10/11,6/10, 06109,4/09, 11/08 Created /05 

EXHIBIT #5/d -3 

(ISUSICSU) RESPONSE: 

fl Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed Code I 62) 

fl Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

S fl Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 



Final Order Na 
-MQA 

FILED DATEAPR 1 5 2013 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

hi Re: Emergency Suspension of the License of 
DTho Jose Antonioni, ROPh. 

License No.: PS 38504 
Case No.: 2012-14458 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF LICENSE 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS, State Surgeon General and Secretary 

of Health, ORDERS the emergency suspension of the license of Dm0 Jose 

Antonioni, R.Ph., to practice as a pharmacist in the State of Florida. Mr. 

Antonioni holds license number PS 38504. His address of record is 15115 

Southwest th Street, Miramar, Florida 33027. The following Findings of 

Fact and Conclusions of Law support the emergency suspension of Mr. 

Antonioni's license to practice as a pharmacist. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health ("Department") is the state agency 

charged with regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Chapters 20, 

456, and 465, Florida Statutes (2012). Section 456.074(1), Florida 

Statutes (2012), authorizes the Department to summarily suspend Mr. 

Antonioni's license to practice as a pharmacist. 



In Re: Emergency of the Ucense of 
ma )ose Antonioni, R.Pt%. 

Ucense No.: PS 38S04 
Case No.: 2012-14458 

2. At all times material to this Order, Mr. Antonioni was licensed 

to practice as a pharmacist the State of Florida pursuant to Chapter 465, 

Statutes (2012). 

3. On or about August 31, 2010, in the United States District 

Court, Northern District of California, an indictment was flied alleging that 

Mr. Antonioni conspired to distribute more than forty-eight million dollars 

worth of controlled substances outside the scope of professional practice 

between in or about January 2006, and March 2008. Mr. Antonioni was 

subsequently arrested in or about September 2010. 

4. On or about December 7, 2010, in the United States District 

Court, Northern District of California, a superseding indictment was filed 

charging Mr. Antonioni with one count of conspiracy to distribute Schedule 

I and IV controlled substances in violation of 21 U.S.C. 846; one count of 

attempted possession with intent to distribute and distribution of Schedule 

III and IV controlled substances in violation 21 U.S.C. ss. 846, 841(a)(1), 

(b)(l)(D) & (b)(2); one count of conspiracy to launder money in violation 

of 18 U.S.C. 1956(h) & (a)(2)(A); and one count of international money 

laundering in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1956(a)(2)(A). 

2 



In Re: Emergency of the License of 
m0 Jose Antonionm, RSh. 
Uosrse No.: PS 38504 
Case No.: 2012-14458 

5. On or about March 27, 2013, in the United States District Court, 

Northern District of California, in case number CR-10-00642-O11, Mr. 

entered a plea of guilty to one count of conspiracy with intent to 

distribute Schedule III or IV controlled substances, a felony, in violation of 

21 U.S.C. , 
6. The Department did not learn of the above referenced plea 

until on or about April 5, 2013. 

7. Section 456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that the 

Department shall issue an emergency order suspending the license of any 

person licensed under Chapter 465, Florida Statutes, who pleads guilty to a 

felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970, regardless of adjudication. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General and 

Secretary of Health concludes as follows: 

1. The Department has jurisdiction pursuant to Sections 20.43 and 

456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012), and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes 

(2012). 

3 



DiRe: 
mb )ose Antonloni, R.PtI. 
Ucerse No.: PS 38504 
Case No.: 2012-14458 

2. The Department is mandated to summarily suspend Mr. 

Antonioni's license to practice as a pharmacist in accordance with Section 

456.074(1), lorida Statutes (2012). 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Section 456.074(1), florida Statutes 

(2012), it is ORDERED THAT: 

1. The license of Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph., license number PS 

38504, is immediately suspended. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal suspension or discipline of the 

license of Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph., to practice as a pharmacist will be 

promptly instituted and acted upon in compliance with Section 120.569, 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

DONE and ORDERED this 

____________ 

day of April, 2013. 

Joh . Armstrong, MD, Cs 
Sta Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

4 



In Re: Emerge,cy Suspension of the License of 
ma )ose Antonioni, R.Pti. 

No.: PS 38504 
Case No.: 2012-14458 

PREPARED BY: 
Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Couns& 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
(850) 245 — 1111 Telephone 
(850) 245 — 4683 Facsimile 
Florida Bar No. 0078070 

5 



In Re: Emergency of the Ucense of 
Dino Jose Antonlont, R.Pti. 

No.: PS 38504 
Case No.: 2012-14459 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Section 120.68, Florida Statutes (2012), this Order , Review proceedings are governed by the Rorith 

Rules of Appellate Procedure. Proceedings are commenced by filing a 

Petition for Review, in accordance with florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 

9.100, with the District Court of Appeal, accompanied by a filing fee 

prescribed by law, and a copy of the petition with the Agency Clerk of the 

Department within 30 days of the date this Order is filed. 

6 r 



aick Scott Mission: 
Governor To protect, promote & improve the health 

____________ 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, & rommunity efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh 

vs. CASE No.: PS 2012-14458 

DINO JOSE ANTONIONI, RPh 

COMES NOW, the Affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 

1) Affiant is an Investigator employed by the Department of Health, State of Florida. 

2) That on April 17, 2013, Afflant served — Administative Complaint and related papers; 
__Order compelling examination(s); ___Subpoena(s); ___Final order; _Notice to cease and desist; 

ESO and related papers Citation (check appropriate block) 

3) (Check applicable answer) 

Affiant made personal service on Mrs. Antonioni on behalf of Respondent at his 
home address of 15115 Southwest th Street, Miraniar, Florida 33027 

__Affiant was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for 
Respondent shown in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in 
his licensing records on the computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area 
Respondent was known to frequent; (d) DMsion of Drivers Ucenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); 
any others: 

____________________________ 

T.Torres, MMI - Affiant 

STATE OF FLORIDA } 
COUNTY OF BROWARD } 
Before me, personally appeared Enriaue T. Tories whose identity is personally known to me and who, 
acknowledges that his signature appears above. 

by Affiant before me of . 

Notary Public-State of Florida I 1$ 535 
hd:b°' Type or Pnnt Name 

Florida Department of lth www.FlorldasHeelth.com 
of Medical Quality Assurance • Bureau of Enforcement TWI1TER:HealthyFLA 

1400 West Commercial Boulevard, Suite 130J, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309 , 
PHONE: (954) 202-3250 • FAX (954) 202-3254 YOUTIJBE: fldoh 
MQA FORM 329 -- ) 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & iMprove the heath 
of ll people in Florida through titegrated 
state, county & community 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John I-f. Armstrong, D, FACS 
Surgeon General & Secretary 

Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph. 

15115 SW .54th Street 
The Reserve At Hungtinton 
Miramar, FL 33027 

April 16, 2013 

RE: Department of Health vs. Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph. 
Case Number: 2012-14458 

Dear Mr. Antonioni: 

Enclosed please find an Order of Emergency Suspension of License filed April 15, 2013, against 
your license to practice as a pharmacist in the State of Florida. You should immediately cease the 
practice as a pharmacist according to the enclosed Order of Emergency Suspension of License. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact Kristal Beharry, Assistant General 
Counsel at (850) 245-1111. 

Mell .. 

Regulatory Specialist II 
Prosecution Services Unit 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel • ProseaJbon Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row- SuIte 105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4662 

.FleridasKealth.com 
IR:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:ELDeparUuentofl-Iealth 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 

7 , 
Rätidä 
HEALTh 

Visionr To be the Healthiest State in the Nafion 

Certified le Number 

7196 9008 9111 8827 8535 

SENDERS flECORD 

Sincerely 



TO: 

7196 9008 9111 8827 8535 

SENDER: 

ma I Antonioni, R.Ph. 
15115 SW 54th St 
The Reserve At Huntington 
Miramar, FL 33027 

REFERENCE: ESO 
2012-14458 

2. Article Number 

I 1 VIII 

7196 9008 9111 8827 8535 

3. Service Type CERTIFIED MAILYM 

4. Restricted Delivery? (Extra Fee) jves 
1. ArtIcle Addressed to; 

Dino 3. Antonioni, R.Ph. 
15115 SW 54th St. 
The Reserve At Huntington 
Miramar, FL 33027 

,ceived by (Please Print Clearly) 

COMflLETETRIS SECTION ON DELIVERY 

:tr) khiVt 
N. ilenr 11 

iryesç enter delivery 
C Yes 

C No 

N) 1 

PS Form 3811, January 2005 Domestic Return Receipt 

PS Form . January 2005 

RETURN 
RECEIPT 
SERVICE 

Postage 

Certijied Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 

I 

Restricted Delivery 

. 

Total Postage & Fees 

Receipt for 
Certffied hhair 
No Insurance Coverage Provids 
Do Net Use toc Imsmaftart 

POSTMARK OR DATE 

4/16/2013 

EjAgeni 
C Addressee 

C 
Antonioni 
12-14458 4/16/2013 
Beharry 



Apellaniz, Melba 

From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us 
Sent: Tuesday, l 16,20139:02 AM 
To: Apellaniz, Melba 
Subject: Submit Notice in FAR 

You have successfully submitted a notice for publication in the Florida Administrative 
Register on 4/16/2013 9:01:53 PM. 

Department: Department of Health 
Organization: Board of Pharmacy 
Notice type: Miscellaneous 
Issue: 39/75 

Once this notice is published you will be able to view it by clicking the following link: 
http://www. FLRules .org/gateway/ViewNotice.asp?id=12890056 

You may contact the Florida Administrative Register office at (850)245—6270 for additional 
information. 

@ItsWorkingFL: https://twitter.com/ItsworkingFL The Department of State is leading the 
commemoration of Florida's 500th anniversary in 2013. For more information, please go to 
www. flaSOO. corn. 
The Department of State is committed to excellence. Please take our Customer Satisfaction 
Survey: http://survey.dos. 

1 



Rick Scott 
1 

Governor 
Mission: 

promote & improve the health - 

through 

hitegrated John H. Arnistrong,MD,FACS 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nalon 

TO: • 

MEMORANDUM 

Florida Administrative Register, Liz Cloud 

FROM: Melba L. Apellaniz, Regulatory Specialist I 
RE; IDino Jose Antonioni, RN., License # P5 38504 

CASE NO: 2012-14458 

DATE; April 16,2013 

Attached please find notice of the issuance of an Emergency Suspension Order for notice in the next issue of the Florida 
Administrative Register. 

On April 15, 2013, the State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Dino 
Jose Antonioni, R,PIL, License # PS 38504, This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's 
findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6) 
Florida Statutes (2011). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in 
that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public. 

Florida Dopartment of Health ioridasHoalth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecuflon SeMces Unit lthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin Q55 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 . !th 
Express mail address: 2585 Row - Suite 105 VOUTIJBE: lldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4662 



*w Transmit Conf. Report ** 
P.1 Apr 162013 09:U5ain 

Fax/Phone Number Mode Start Time Page Result Note 

99216847 Normal l6:uJ9:O4am 0'29" 1 * 0 K 

Nick Scott MisMbn: 

a n H Armstvcus, MD, rAce 
EALTH 

Vision, the lMIthiontSbt, bibs 

April 16, 2013 

The Honorable Robert S. Cohen 
Chief Administrative Law Judge ' Administrative Hearings 
1230 Apalachee Parkway 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

RE; Department of Health vs. Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph. 
Case Number: 2012-14458 

DearJudge Cohen; 

This letter is to advise you that the Department has issued an Emergency Suspension Order 
concerning the license of Dm0 Jose Antonioni to practice as a pharmacist in the State of 
Florida. An Adniinislrative Complaint has not been issued in the above case. Therefore, this is 
not a request for a formal hearing. 

This letter is sent to advise you of the action taken by the Department and to advise you of the 
possibility that the respondent may request an expedited hearing. The Department shall keep 
you advised of any developments. If you need additional information, please contact Kristal 
Beharry, Assistant General Counsel at (850) 2454444. 

Sincerely, t 
Regulatory Specialist I 
Prosecution Services Unit 

FIoSM Dopmisont of lth l 
the . Seenbia. iN 

4e2 Cypsesa , $ 'Tinsen !. 1704 S %tefHsath 
msNnXres: 2555 Mweiai!s Row. Sobs 10$ 

VOUTiJEE: thiob 
PHONE • FAX 



Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

April 16, 2013 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
Surgeon General & Seaetary 

The Honorable Robert S. Cohen 

Chief Administrative Law Judge 
Division of Administrative Hearings 
1230 Apalachee Parkway 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

RE: Department of Health vs. Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph. 
Case Number: 2012-14458 

Dear Judge Cohen: 

This letter is to advise you that the Department has issued an Emergency Suspension Order 
concerning the license of Dino Jose Antonioni to practice as a pharmacist in the State of 
Florida. An Administrative Complaint has not been issued in the above case. Therefore, this is 
not a request for a formal hearing. 

This letter is sent to advise you of the action taken by the Department and to advise you of the 
possibility that the respondent may request an expedited hearing. The Department shall keep 
you advised of any developments. If you need additional information, please contact Kristal 
Beharry, Assistant General Counsel at (850) 245-4444. 

Regulatory Specialist II 
Prosecution Services Unit 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel • ProseQThon Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthanls RowS Suite 105 

PHONE: )2454444 • FAX 850/245-4662 

,idasHealth.com 
ITER:HealthyFLA 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 

Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community effort. 

HEALTH 

Sincerely, 



nanu ôerviec fl3u IL-I'+'+JoItulLOfllUIll 
. rage i or i 

Apellaniz, Melba 

From: Apellaniz, Melba 

Sent:. Tuesday, April 16, 2013 8:51 AM 

To: DL MQA lnv Serv Priority Mail ArealO (LI) Ft. Lauderdale 

Subject: Fiend Service ESO 12-14458/Antonioni 

Attachments: Supp.Req.12-14458.Antonioni.4.1 6.1 3.doc; DOH 13-0674 ESO 201214458-1. PDF 

Good Morning, 

Attached please find a request to hand service ESO for case 2012-14458, Dino José Antonioni, R.Ph. 

<<...>> <<...>> 1 
HeTha-'L. RSII 
Assistant to: Daniel Hernandez, DUC 
Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4444 ext. 8223 
Mission: To protect, promote, and improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, county, & community efforts, 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Values: ICARE 

I innovation: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely. 
C collaboration: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems. 
A accountability: We perform with integrity & respect. 
R responsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & engaging our partners. 
E excellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & continuous performance improvement. 
Purpose: To protect the public through health care licensure, enforcement and information. 
Focus: To be the nation's leader in quality health care regulation. 

Please note: 
Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications lo or from stale officials regarding state business are public records available 
to the public and media upon request. Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail. 

4/16/2013 



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEAIJT 
PSLJ REQUEST FORM 

FROM: Melba L. Apellaniz, R.Sll for Kristal 
Beharry, Esq. 

TO: Patricia Callahan 

Date: 13 TO: CSU 

Phone #: (850) 245-4640 Ext 8223 CC: Yvanne Gustave 

Case Number: 20 12-14458 Board: Pharmacy 
Subject Dino José Antonioni, R.Ph. HL Code:h1l46a Status: 90 
Requested Completion Date: ASAP 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Process Service* (Activity Code 160) 

fl Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 

fl Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code I 50) 

Details: Please hand serve attached ESO/ERO. Thanks. 

The following additional information is needed for each service request: 

Last Known Address: 15115 SW Street, The Reserve At Huntington, Miramar, FL 33027; Last Known Name & 
Phone Number: Dino José Antonioni, R.Ph.; (954) 397-1881; Last Known Place of Employment & Address if 
Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl Nofl; If Yes, When? 

7 

YES II service requests need to be sent to appr$priaie field 

(ISU/CSU) RESPONSE: 

fl Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed (Activity Code 162) 

fl Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

fl Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Acti vity Code 157) 

INV FORM 376, Revised 1/12. 10/11,6/10, 06/09, 4/09, 11/08 Created 4/05 



N 

l Order No. ?CJD -MQA 
FILED DATEAPR 1 5 2013 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Ucense of 
Dino Jose Antonloni, R,Ph, 
Ucense No.: PS 38504 
Case No.: 2012-14458 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF LICENSE 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS, State Surgeon General and Secretary 

of Health, ORDERS the emergency suspension of the license of a Jose 

Antonioni, R.Ph., to practice as a pharmacist in the State of Florida. Mr. 

Antonioni holds license number PS 38504. His address of record is 15115 

Southwest th Street, Miramar, Florida 33027. The following Findings of 

Fact and Conclusions of Law support the emergency suspension of Mr. 

Antonioni's license to practice as a pharmacist. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health ("Department") is the state agency 

charged with regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Chapters 20, 

456, and 465, Florida Statutes (2012). Section 456.074(1), Florida 

Statutes (2012), authorizes the Department to summarily suspend Mr. l's license to practice as a pharmadst. 



In Re: Emergency of the IJcense of 
Dino )ose Antoniwi, R.Ph. 
Uwise No.: PS 38504 
Case No.: 2012-14458 

2. At all times material to this Order, Mr. Antonioni was licensed 

to practice as a pharmacist in the State of Rorida pursuant to Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

3. On or about August 31, 2010, in the United States District 

Court, Northern District of California, an indictment was filed alleging that 

Mr. Antonioni conspired to distribute more than forty-eight million dollars 

worth of controlled substances outside the scope of professional practice 

between in or about January 2006, and March 2008. Mr. Antonioni was 

subsequently arrested in or about September 2010. 

4. On or about December 7, 2010, in the United States District 

Court, Northern District of California, a superseding indictment was filed 

charging Mr. Antonioni with one count of conspiracy to distribute Schedule 

Ill and IV controlled substances in violation of 21 U.S.C. 846; one count of 

attempted possession with intent to distribute and distribution of Schedule 

III and IV controlled substances in violation 21 U.S.C. ss. 846, 841(a)(1), 

(b)(1)(D) & (b)(2); one count of conspiracy to launder money in violation 

of 18 U.S.C. 1956(h) & (a)(2)(A); and one count of international money 

laundering in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1956(a)(2)(A). 

2 



In Re: Emergency Suspen&on of the of 
Jose Antonionl, R.Pb. 

No.: PS 38504 
Case No.: 2011-14458 

5. On or about March 27, 2013, in the United States District Court, 

Northern District of California, case number CR-10-00642-O11, 0 
Antonioni entered a plea of guilty to one count of conspiracy with intent to 

distribute Schedule II or IV controlled substances, a felony, In violation of 

21 0 846. 

6. The Department did not learn of the above referenced plea 

until on or about April 5, , 
7. Section 456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that the 

Department shall issue an emergency order suspending the license of any 

person licensed under Chapter 465, Florida Statutes, who pleads guilty to a 

felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970, regardless of adjudication. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General and 

Secretary of Health condudes as follows: 

1. The Department has jurisdiction pursuant to Sections 20.43 and 

456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012), and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes 

(2012). 

3 



In Re: Emergency Susperson of the License of 
3ose Antonioni, R.Pti. 

Ueise No.: PS 38504 
Case No.: 2012-14458 

2. The Department is mandated to summarily suspend Mr. 

Antonioni's license to practice as a pharmacist in accordance with Section 

456.074(1), florida Statutes (2012). 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Section 456.074(1), florida Statutes 

(2012), it is ORDERED THAT: 

1. The license of Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph., license number PS 

38504, is immediately suspended. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal suspension or discipline of the 

license of Dm0 Jose Antonioni, R.Ph., to practice as a pharmacist will be 

promptly instituted and acted upon in compliance with Section 120.569, 

Rorida Statutes (2012). 

DONE and ORDERED this 

___________ 

day of April, 2013. 

Joh .Armstrong,MD, CS 

Sta Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 



In Re: of the Uc&tse of 
3ose Antonlord, LPh. 

No.: PS 38504 
Case No.: -14458 

PREPARED BY: 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Couns& 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin &65 
Tallahassee, Florida -3265 
(850) 245 — 4444 Telephone 
(850) 245 — 4683 Facsimile 
Florida Bar No. 0078070 

5 



In Re: Emergency Suspension of the License of 
Dino Mtonton4, QPIi. 
Ucense No.: PS 38504 
Case No.: 2012-14438 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO UDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Section 120.68, Florida Statutes (2012), this Order is 

judiciaUy , Review proceedings are governed by the lorida 

Rules of Appellate Procedure. Proceedings are commenced by filing a 

Petition for Review, in accordance with Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 

9.100, with the District Court of Appeal, accompanied by a filing fee 

prescribed by law, and a copy of the petition with the Agency Clerk of the 

Department within 30 days of the date this Order is filed. 

6 



MEMORANDUM OF FINDING OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 
RE: DOH v. Dm0 Jose Antonioni, R.Ph. 

DOH Case Number 2012-14458 

MEMBERS: Jeffrey 3. Mesaros, R.Ph & Cynthia R. Griffin, PharmD 

DATE OF PCP: April 25, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: Al .•••••.•••••••••••••UU•U•• ...U.........U.. ••••••••S•.•... ..................•u•• 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed 
the complete investigative report, recommendations of the Department, and any 
information submitted by the Subject, and being otherwise fully advised in the 
premises, the panel finds that: 

X Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012) 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

Other 

Ch ir, Proba le aus a el Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida thrnugh integrated 

John H. Armstrong, D, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201216863 

ERIC JASEN GAINES II, 

RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: ERIC JASEN GAINES II 

7 LILAC LN 
CRAWFORDVILLE, FL 32327 

AND: R. TIMOTHY JANSEN 
1206 NORTH DUVAL STREET 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32303 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. Although the Respondent is not required to be present, 
it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan 
Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Hearing — No Disputed Material Facts. 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m. therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



. 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Director 
,,$'OARD OF 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX : (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Governor Mission: 

To protect, promote & improve the health 
I 

of all people in Florida through integrated i 

state, county & cornmunity efforts. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

H EALTH 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM : Louise Wilhite-St. Laurent, Deputy General Counsel 

RE: Informal Hearing 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Eric Jansen Gaines, II, RPT 

DOH Case Number 2012-16863 

DATE: August 28, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the 

October 8-9, 2013, agenda for final agency action for the meeting of the board. 

The following information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: Eric Jansen Gaines, II, RPT s Address of Record: 7 Lilac Lane 
Crawfordville, FL 32327 
850-566-4001 Telephone 

Enforcement Address: 7 Lilac Lane 
Crawfordville, FL 32327 s License No: 45259 Rank: RPT 

Licensure File No: 47149 

Initial Licensure Date: 10/31/2012 

Board Certification: None 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: None 

Allegation(s): Count : Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida 

Statues (2012), by violating Section 

893.13(6)(a) or (7)(a), Florida Statutes (2012) 

Count : Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida 

Statutes (2012) 

www.FlorldasHealth.com Florida Department of Health 
ITTER:KealthyFLA 

Office of the General Counsel Prosecution SeMces Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3256 FACEBOOK:FLDePartmentofHealth 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 . FAX 850/245-4662 



DOH v. Eric Jansen Gaines, II, RPT 

Case No. 201 2-1 6863 

Prior Discipline: 11/15/12, (20 12-16868, duplicative of Count II, 
closing order issued) 

Probable Cause Panel: Jeffery J. Mesa PharmD, and Lorena M. Risch 

PCP: June 20, 2013 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department Of Health/CSU 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Final Order 
Administrative Complaint 
Election of Rights• 
Supplemental Investigative Report III dated 
5/15/13 with Exhibits S-i 

through S-2 
Supplemental Investigative Report II dated 
4/18/13 with Exhibits S-i 
through S-3 
Supplemental Investigative Report I dated 
with Exhibit S-i 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1-4 

Other Required Document 
Order Compelling an Examination 
EmergencySuspension Order 
Election of Rights 
Motion to Assess Costs with attachments 
Notification Letter to Respondent 

DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES: 
Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statues (2012), by violating Section 893.13, Florida 

Statutes (2012): Minimum - $5,000.00 fine and 2 years probation to Maximum — 

Revocation. 

Section 456.072(i)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), for a misdemeanor conviction related 

to the practice: Minimum - $1,000.00 fine to Maximum — Revocation. 

Page 
I 

2 



DOH v. Eric Jansen Gaines, II, RPT 

Case No. 201 2-1 6863 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: INFORMAL HEARING 

• FACTS: Respondent stole upwards of 1,115 pills of controlled substances from his 

employer, Publix Pharmacy. Respondent to ingesting some of the 

substances (Respondent was observed ingesting liquid hydrocodone on surveillance 

camera in the pharmacy), and bartering or giving away other drugs that he stole 

from the pharmacy. Deputies recovered approximately 400 pills from Respondent's 

home. Respondent was charged with a felony in Wakulla county and petit theft in 

Leon County. The Wakulla county charges were dropped and the Respondent plead 

nob contendere to the misdemeanor count of petit theft on March 11, 2013 and 

adjudication was withheld. 
• An Emergency Suspension Order was issued by the Department on June 4, 

2013. 
• An Administrative Complaint was filed on June 20, 2013. 

• Respondent returned an Election of Rights dated July 8, 2013, electing an 

informal hearing. 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE DEPARTMENT 

• The Department recommends revocation of the Respondent's license to 

practice as a registered pharmacy technician and the imposition of costs incurred by 

the Department in investigating and prosecuting this case through the date of the 

entry of the final order. 

CONSIDERATIONS SUPPORTING THE DEPARTMENT'S RECOMMENDATION 

• The Department makes the revocation recommendation because of the 

egregiousness of the Respondent's conduct in this case. The Respondent was first 

licensed in October 2012, and immediately began stealing large amounts of Schedule 

II controlled substances from his employer. The Respondent did not possess any of 

the required judgment for individuals working with controlled substances. 

Respondent blatantly stole medications from employer, consumed them (even 

doing so while working), bartered the substances for food or just gave them away. 

Respondent should have been aware of the serious effects these drugs can have on 

people, but he had no regard for the damage his actionscould cause to himself, his 

employer, or the people to whom he was the drugs. Furthermore, 

Respondent received extremely minimal punishment for his felony crimes, and the 

Page I 
3 



DOH v. Eric Jansen Gaines, II, RPT 
Case No. 201 2-16863 

probation conditions imposed fell short of addressing any of the real issues that led 

to Respondent's theft of the drugs. 
Should the Board of Pharmacy not wish to revoke Respondent's license, the 

Department recommends that the only acceptable discipline alternative would be a 

$5,000 fine, imposition of all costs incurred by the Department in investigating and 

prosecuting the case, a one-year suspension, a period of four years probation, and a 

PRN evaluation with the requirement to follow PRN's recommendations. 

Page 
I 

4 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

, CASE NO. 2012-16863 

ERIC JASEN GAINES, II, 

Respondent. 

_________________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER AFTER HEARING NOT INVOLVING 
DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACTS 

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, by and through its undersigned counsel, 

and moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order in the above- 

styled cause on a date and time that has been determined and noticed by 

the Board. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner would state the following: 

1. Petitioner previously filed an Administrative Complaint against 

Respondent alleging that Respondent had violated the provisions of Florida 

Statutes, as set forth therein. The Department, by filing the Administrative 

Complaint, is seeking to discipline the Respondent's license to practice as a 

Registered Pharmacy Technician thereby affecting the Respondent's 

substantial interests. 



2. On or about June 20, 2013, Petitioner served Respondent with the 

Administrative Complaint via Respondent's address of record with the 

Department of Health. The Department, by serving the Respondent with 

the Admfinistrative Compaaint, provided the Respondent written notice of fits 

decision to seek discipline of the Respondent's license to practice as a 

Registered Pharmacy Technician. 

3. The Respondent has filed an Election of Rights Form or other 

responsive pleading evincing, or has otherwise indicated, that Respondent 

does not dispute the material facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

4. There are no disputed issues of material fact to be resolved by 

the Board. 

5. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case shall be furnished to the Board to 

establish a prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Administrative Complaint. 



WHEREFORE, the parties respectfully request the Board of 

Pharmacy, after allowing the Respondent the opportunity to present l 
and/or written evidence in igation of the Administratflve int, enter 

a Final Order imposing whatever discipline upon the Respondent's license 

that the Board deems appropriate. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

.ouise Wilhite-St. Aurent 
Assistant General Counsel I Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 0091244 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444, ext.8331 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4662 
Email: Louise_StLaurent@doh.state.fl.us 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing has been provided by US. this day 

2013, to: Eric .Jansen Gaines, U, RPT, 7 Lilac Lane, Crawfordville, lorida 

32327. 

Laurent 
Assistant General Counsel 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETXT!ONEPV 

v. CASE NO: 2012-16863 

ERIC JASEN GAINES, II, RJ.P.Tfl 

RESPONDENT. 

___________________________________________I 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner, Department of Health ("Petitioner" or "Department"), files 

this Administrative Complaint against the Respondent, ERIC JASEN 

GAINES, II, R.P.T. ("Respondent"), and states: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating 

pharmacists, pursuant to Chapters 20, 456 and 465, Florida Statutes 

(2012). 

2. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was a registered pharmacy technician, pursuant to Chapter 

465, Florida Statutes (2012), having been issued license number RPT 

45259. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 7 Lilac Lane, Crawfordvifle, 

Florida 32327. 

4. At all times materia' to this Adminisfrative Complaint, 

Respondent worked as a registered pharmacy technidan at Pubflx 

Pharmacy located at 5032 Capital Circle Southwest, Suite 1, Tallahassee, 

Florida 32305. 

5. On or about October 26, 2012, a Publix Loss Prevention Officer 

received a tip from an anonymous Publix customer that a pharmacy 

employee named "Eric" was selling stolen prescription medications from 

the store. 

6. The Loss Prevention Officer determined that the Pharmacy was 

missing the following amounts of medications from its inventory: 115 

tablets of Xanax 0.5 mg; 168 tablets of lprazolam 0.5 mg; 12 tablets of 

temazepam 30 mg; 158 tablets of hydrocodone/APAP 5/500 mg; 86 tablets 

of hydrocodone/APAp 7.5/3.25 mg; and 65 tablets of, hydrocodone/APAP 

10/325 mg; 99 tablets of hydrocodone/APAP 10/500 mg. 

7. lprazolam, also known by the brand name Xanax, is prescribed 

to treat anxiety. According to Section Florida Statutes (2012), 

alprazolam is a Schedule IV controlled substance that has a low potential 

DOH y. Eric Jasen Gaines, I, R.P.T. 2 
DOK Case Number 2012-16863 



for abuse relative to the substances in Schedule Ill and has a currently 

accepted medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse of 

alprazolam may lead to limited physical or psychological dependence 

relative to the substances in Schedule IlL 

8. Temazepam is prescribed to treat insomnia. According to 

Section 893.03(4), Florida Statutes (2012), temazepam is a Schedule IV 

controlled substance that has a low potential for abuse relative to the 

substances in Schedule III and has a currently accepted medical use in 

treatment in the United States. Abuse of temazepam may lead to limited 

physical or psychological dependence relative to the substances in 

Schedule III. 

9. also known by the brand name Vicodin, 

contains hydrocodone and acetaminophen, or Tylenol and is prescribed to 

treat pain. According to Section 893.03(3), Florida Statutes (2012), 

hydrocodone, in the dosages found in hydrocodone/APAP is a Schedule II 
controlled substance that has a potential for abuse less than the 

substances in Schedules I and II and has a currently accepted medical use 

in treatment in the United , Abuse of the substance may lead to 

moderate or low physical dependence or high psychological dependence. 

UGH v. Eric Jasen Gaina, If, R.P.T. 3 
UGH Case Number 20t2-16663 



10. On or about November 2, 2012, Publix pharmacy surveillance 

cameras were repositioned for additional monitoring. 

11. The video surveillance taken on November 3, 2012, showed 

Respondent dumping prescription pills from multiple bottles into his hand 

and placing the medications into the pocket of his work jacket. 

12. The pharmacy manager conducted a targeted drug count 

before Respondent's shift on November 3, 2012, and recounted after 

Respondent's shift. 

13. The targeted drug count revealed a shortage of the following 

medications after Respondent's shift: 194 pIlls of lprazolam 0.5 mg; 200 

pills of aiprazotam 1 mg; 4 pills of lprazolam 2 mg; 115 pills of 

hydrocodone/APAP 5/325 mg; 71 pills of hydrocodone/APAP 5/500 mg; and 

29 pills of hydrocodone/APAP 10/500 mg. 

14. The video surveillance from November 3, 2012; also showed 

Respondent consuming liquid hydrocodone in the back of the pharmacy 

during his shift. 

15. On or about November 5, 2012, deputies with the Wakulla 

County Sheriff's Office Narcotics Unit conducted a search of Respondent's 

home located at 7 Lilac Lane, Crawfordville, Florida. 

DOH v. Eric Jasen Gaines, , 4 
DOR Case Number 2012-16863 



16. During the search of Respondent's home, 198 tablets of 

1 mg, 192 tablets of àlprazolam 0.5 mg, 20 tablets of 

acetarninophen/hydrocodone, and 2 tablets were seized. 

17. Ambien is the brand name for the drug zolpidem, prescribed to 

treat insomnia. According to Title 21, Section 1308.14, Code of Federal 

Regulations, zolpidem is a Schedule IV controlled substance. Zolpidem can 

cause dependence and is subject to abuse. 

18. On or about November 5, 2012, Respondent admitted stealing 

Vicodin, Xanax, Tramadol and Percocet on approximately 10 to 15 

occasions from August 2012 to November 2012 to a Publix Loss Prevention 

Officer. Respondent admitted stealing approximately 1,115 pills from the 

• Publix Pharmacy during that time period. 

19. Tramadol, commonly known by the brand name Ultram, is an 

opiold class medication prescribed to treat pain. Traniadot is a legend 

drug, but not a controlled substance. Tramadol, like all opiold-class drugs, 

can affect mental alertness, is subject to abuse, and can be habit forming. 

20. Percocet is a brand name for oxycodone/APAP, which contains 

oxycodone and acetaminophen or Tylenol. According to Section 893.03(2), 

Florida Statutes (2012), oxycodone is a Schedule H controlled substance 

DOI-I v. Eric Jasen Gaines, IL, R.P.T. 5 
DOH Case Number 2012-16863 



that has a high potential for abuse and has a currently accepted but 

severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse of 

oxycodone may lead to severe psychological or physical dependence. 

21. On or about November 5, 2012, Respondent admitted to a 

Publix Loss Prevention Officer that he consumed some of the stolen pills 

and sold or gave away others. 

22.. On or about November 5, 2012, Respondent admitted to a Leon 

County Sheriff's Deputy that he provided the stolen pills to friends and 

acquaintances. 

23. On or about November 5, 2012, Respondent admitted to a 

Wakulla County Sheriff's Deputy that he traded the stolen pills for food at a 

local restaurant and also consumed some of the stolen pills. 

24. On or about November 12, 2012, a Leon County Judge issued 

an arrest warrant for the Respondent in Leon County Case Number 

2012MM4910 for the charge of petit theft, a first degree misdemeanor, 

resulting from the Respondent's theft of medications from Publix Pharmacy. 

25. On or about March 11, 2013, the Respondent entered a plea of 

nob contendere to the charge of petit theft in Leon County Case Number 

2012MM4910. The Leon County Court judge withheld adjudication, placed 

Doll v. Eric Jasen Gaines, , R.P.T. 6 
DOM Case Number 2012-16863 



the Respondent on six months of probation with the possibility of early 

termination and required the Respondent to complete a theft class and pay 

$550.00 in restitution to , 
COUNT X 

26. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 25 

as if fuUy set forth herein. 

27. Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2012), subjects 

registered pharmacy technicians to discipline for violating Chapter 893, 

Florida Statutes. 

28. Chapter 893.13, Florida Statutes (2012), states in pertinent 

part: 

(6)(a) It is unlawful for any person to be in actual 
or constructive possession of a controlled substance 
unless such controlled substance was lawfully 
obtained from a practitioner or pursuant to a valid 
prescription or order of a practitioner whileacting in 
the course of his or her professional practice or to 
be in actual or constructive possession of a 

controlled substance except as authorized by this 
chapter.... 

(7)(a) A person may not: 
1. Distribute or dispense a controlled substance in 
violation of this chapter.... ] 
9. Acquire or obtain, or attempt to acquire or 
obtain, possession of a controlled substance by 

DOH v. et lasen Gaines, II, R.P.t 7 
OCH Case Number 2012-16863 



misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception or 
subterfuge. 

29. Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes 

(2012), in one or more of the following ways: 

a. By possessing aiprazolam, or Xanax, in violation of Chapter 

893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2012); 

b. By possessing temazepam in violation of Chapter 893.13(6)(a), 

Florida Statutes (2012); 

c. By possessing hydrocodone/APAP in violation of Chapter 

893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2012); 

d. By possessing oxycodone/APAP, or Percocet, in violation of 

Chapter 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2012); 

e. By distributing or dispensing aiprazolam, or Xanax, in violation 

of Chapter 893.13(7)(a)(1), Florida Statutes (2012); 

f. By distributing or dispensing temazepam in violation of Chapter 

893. 13(7)(a)( 1), Florida Statutes (2012); 

g. By distributing or dispensing hydrocódone/APAP in violation of 

Chapter 893.13(7)(a)(1), Florida Statutes (2012); 

h. By distributing or dispensing oxycodone/APAP, or Percocet, in 

violation of Chapter 893.13(7)(a)(1), Florida Statutes (2012); 
DON v. Eric Jasen Gakies, II, R.P.11 8 
OCH Case Nim,ber 2012-16863 



i. By acquiring possession of aiprazotam, or Xanax, by 

misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception or subterfuge in 

violation of Chapter 893.13(7)(a)(9), Florida Statutes (2012); 

j. By acquiring poSsession of temazepam by misrepresentation, 

fraud, forgery, deception or subterfuge in violation of Chapter 

893. 13(7)(a)(9), Florida Statutes (2012); 

k. By acquiring possession of hydrocodone/APAP by 

misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception or subterfuge in 

violation of Chapter .93.13(7)(a)(9), Florida Statutes (2012); 

and/or 

I. By acquiring possession of oxycodone/APAP, or Percocet, by 

misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception or subterfuge in 

violation of Chapter 893.13(7)(a)(9), Florida Statutes (2012). 

30. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Chapter 893, Florida 

Statutes (2012). 

COUNIXI 

31. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 25 

as if fully set forth herein. 

iv. Eric )asen Gaines, U, aPt 9 
DON Case Number 2012-16863 



32. Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), subjects 

registered pharmacy technicians to disciphne for b]eing convicted or 

found guilty of, or entering a plea of gWfty or nob contendere to, 

regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the 

practice of, or the ability to practice, a licensee's profession." 

33. Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes 

(2012), by entering a plea of b contendere to the charge of Petit Theft, 

arising from the Respondent's theft of the pills from his employer, In Leon 

County Case Number 2012MM4910. 

34. The charge of Petit Theft, under the facts of this case, relates 

to the practice of, or the ability to practice, Respondent's profession. 

35. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by being convicted of or entering a 

plea of nob contendere to a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the 

practice of, or the ability to practice, Respondent's profession. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondents license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

DOll V. Eiic Jasen Gaines, U, R,P,T. 10 
DON Case Number -16863 



placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, l education and/or any other relief that the 

Board of Pharmacy deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

________ 

day 

ILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK J4nge(Sanclers 
DATE JUN 2 0 13 

PCP: June 20, 2013 

of June, 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

uise Wilhite-St La)ifent 
Assistant General Counsel 
Florida Bar Number 0091244 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Telephone; (850) 245-4444 x 8331 
Facsimile; (850) 245-4662 
Email: Louise StLaurent©doh.state.fLus 

PCP Members: Jeffrey J. Mesaros, PharmD 
Lorena NI. Risch 

Doll v. Eric Jasen Gaines, IL, LP.T. 11 I Case Number 2012-16863 



DOH V. ERIC JASEN GAINES, II, R.P.T.; Case No. 2012-16863 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition any other discipline imposed. 

DOH v. Eric Jasen Gaines, , R.P.T. 12 
Doll Case Number 2012-16862 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Tallahassee Date of Case: 11/15/2012 

J 
Case Number 2012-16863 

Subject: 
ERIC JASEN GAINES, 
7 Lilac Lane 
Crawfordville, Florida 32327 
(650) 566-4001 

Source: 
DOH/CSU 

) 
Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RPT 2203 45259 Registered Pharmacy Technician Pharmacy 03/12/2013 
Period of Investigation: 
03/12/2013 

Type of Report: 
SUPPLEMENTAL 

Alleged Violation: Section 465.01 6(1)(d), F.S. - Being unfit or incompetent to practice pharmacy...; Section 
465.016(1)(e), F.S. - Violating chapter 499; 21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392, known as the Federal Food, Drug, and 
Cosmetic Act; 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 et seq., known as the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control 
Act; or chapter 393; Section 465.016(1)(i), F.S. - Compounding, dispensing, or distributing a legend drug...; 
Section 465.016(1 )(m), F.S. - Being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety...; Section 
465.016(1 )(r), F.S. - Violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant 
thereto; Section 456.072(1)(z), F.S. - Being unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety to patients by 
reason of illness or use of alcohol, drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of 
any mental or phylical condition...; Section 456.072(1 )(dd), F.S. — Violating any provision of this chapter, 
the applicable practice act, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto; Section 693.13(1)(a), F.S. - Except as 
authorized by this chapter and chapter 499, it is unlawful for any person...; Section 893.13(6)(a), F.S. - It is 
unlawful for any person to be in actual or constructive possession of a controlled substance...; Section 
893.13(7)(a), F.S. - A person may not.... 
Synopsis: This supplemental investigation is predicated upon receipt of a letter of representation of 
GAINES from Attorney R. TIMOTHY JANSEN. 

JANSEN'S contact information is Jansen & Davis, PA, 1206 North Duval Street, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32303, (850) 224-1440. 

EXHIBITS: 

SI - Letter of representation of GAINES submitted by Attorney JANSEN (pages 2-3). 

HQ 

rn C 

— 

1.b LVI3 
Page I 



JANSEN DAVIS, PA 
Attorneys and Counselors at Law 

R. hy Jansen iio6 N. Duval Street Ryan R. Davis 
Tallahassee, Florida 32303 

Telephone (850) 224-1440 
Facsimile (850) 224-0381 

February 28, 2013 

Ms. Lauren Kennedy 
Investigator 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-70 Received 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FEB 19 2013 

RE: Eric Gaines II, 2012-16863 MQA -i 
Dear Ms. Kennedy: 

Please be advised that our firm is representing Mr. Gaines in the administrative matter 
described in the attached letter from you dated November 16, 2012. Upon receipt of this letter, 
please contact me to discuss this matter further. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. I look forward to speaking to you soon. 

Sincerely, 

R. Timothy Jansen 

Enclosure 

REPORT 
31 _ Z- 



IDA DEPARTMENT OF. 

HEALT John L , MD, FACS 

November 16, 2012 

CONFIDENTIAL : 
Eric Jasen Gaines, II 

7 Lilac Lane 
Crawfordville, Florida 32327 

Case Number: 2012-16863 

Dear Mr. Gaines: 

We are currently investigating the enclosed document received by the Department of Health. This 
investigation was initiated after it was determined that you may have violated your Practice Act. 

Within 20 days of receiving this letter, you may: 

submit a written response to the address below; or 
call our office to schedule an interview. 

Please provide a copy of your curriculum vitae and identify your specialty even if you choose not to 
submit a response. Include the above-referenced case number in any correspondence that you send. 

Florida law requires that this case and all investigative information remain confidential until 10 days after 
the Probable Cause Panel has determined that a violation occurred or you give up the right to 
confidentiality. Therefore, the contents of the investigation cannot be disclosed to you or the general 
public. 

You may make a written request for a copy of the investigative file and it will be sent to you when the 
investigation is complete. You may submit an additional written response to the information in the 
investigative file within 20 days of receipt. Your response (if one is provided), along with the information in 
the file, will be considered by the panel when determining whether a formal administrative complaint should 
be filed in this matter. 

You are not required to answer any questions or give any statement, and you have the right to be 
represented by an attorney. It is not possible to estimate how long it wifl take to complete this investigation 
because the circumstances of each investigation differ. 

The mission of the Division of Medical Quality Assurance is to promote, protect and improve the health of 
all people in Florida. If you have any questions, please call me at (850) 41 3-0850. 

ely, 

Enclosures 

Kennedy 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance/Investigative Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-70 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1701 

Phone: (850) 413-0023 • Fax: (850) 413-9718 http://www.floridashealth.com 3 



FROM: 

RE: 

MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 2013 AUG —5 Pt i2: 

Chair, Probable Cause Panel; Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Eric Jasen Gaines, R.P.T. 
Case Number 201 2-1 6863 

MEMBERS: Jeffrey J. Mesaros, PharmD. and Lorena Risch 

DATE OF PCP: June 20, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-I 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having 

reviewed the complete investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any 

information submitted by the Subject, and being otherwise fully advised in the premises, 

the panel finds that: 

X Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 

statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Count I: Section 465.01 6(1 )(e), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating 
Chapter 893, Florida Statutes (2012) 

Count II: Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012) 

Probable Cause was not found 

In lieu of probable cause, issue Letter of Guidance 

Case requires Expert review 

Case Needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Board of Pharmacy 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

Other 

TO: 

Panel 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Tallahassee Date of Case: 11/15/2012 Case Number 2012-16863 
Subject: 
ERIC JASEN GAINES, 
7 Lilac Lane 
Crawfordville, Florida 32327 
(850) 566-4001 

Source: 
DOH/CSU 

) 
Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RPT 2208 45259 Registered Pharmacy Technician Pharmacy 11/20/2012 
Period of Investigation: 
11/16/2012- 11/20/2012 

Type of Report: 
FINAL 

Alleged Violation: Section 465.016(1)(d), F.S. - Being unfit or incompetent to practice pharmacy...; Section 
465.016(1)(e), F.S. -Violating chapter 499; 21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392, known as the Federal Food, Drug, and 
Cosmetic Act; 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 et seq., known as the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control 
Act; or chapter 893; Section 465.016(1)(i), F.S. - Compounding, dispensing, or distributing a legend drug...; 
Section 465.016(1)(m), F.S. - Being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety...; Section 
465.016(1 )(r), Ft - Violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted 
thereto; Section 456.072(1 )(z), F.S. - Being unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety to by 
reason of illness or use of alcohol, drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or resuk of 
any mental or physical condition...; Section 456.072(1)(dd), F.S. — Violating any provision of this 
the applicable practice act, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto; Section 893.13(1)(a), F.S. - Except as 
authorized by this chapter and chapter 499. it is unlawful for any person...; Section 893.13(6)(a), -JtJs 
unlawful for any person to be in actual or constructive possession of a controlled substance...; Sedion 
893.13(7)(a), F.S. - A person may not.... 
Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon source information (Case Summary and attachments, 
submitted by DOH/CSU stating GAINES was arrested on 11/09/2012 in Wakulla County, Florida, on drug 
trafficking charges after law enforcement conducted a search of GAINES' residence and discovered prescription 
medication that was stolen from a Tallahassee Publix pharmacy. GAINES was charged with drug trafficking of 
more than 14 grams but less than 28 grams and possession of a Schedule Ill or IV narcotics with intent to sell. 
The total amount of seized pills included 390 generic Xanax pills which weighed 50.5 grams and 20 Hydrocodone 
pills weighing 15.3 grams. Two additional Ambien pills were also seized. Arrest warrants are pending in Leon 
County, Florida, as GAINES faces additional charges. 

GAINES was notified of this investigation by letter, dated 11/16/2012, and was provided a copy of the Case 
Summary and originating complaint (Exhibit #2). GAINES was also notified telephonically on 11/16/2012. 

A search of DOH licensure records reveals GAINES is currently a registered pharmacy technician, with a license 
status of dear, active, and an expiration date of 12/31/2014. 

Patient Notification was not required in this investigation. 

GAINES has stated he Is represented by attorney; however, no letter of representation has been received. 

GAINES has not responded to the allegation(s). 

Related compiaintfs): N/A 

• 

in 

Will! I 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT . CASE NUMBER: 2012-16863 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

L REPORT COVER I 

01. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

OUL DETAOLS 

Summary of Records 3 

Interview of ERIC JASEN GAINES (subject) 3 

OV. EXHBDTS 

I. Case Summary and attachments 4-7 

2. Copy of Notification letter, dated 11/16/2012 8-12 

3. Copy of court documents from the LEON COUNTY CLERK OF COURTS 
13-18 

4. Copy of court documents from the WAKULLA COUNTY CLER OF COURTS 
19-36 

*EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND 
ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(8), FLORIDA STATUTES 

records are sealed pursuant to Section 456.057(8), Florida Statutes and copies 
of same are not maintained in the Tallahassee Investigative Services office 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 2012-16863 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF RECORDS 

Exhibit #3 consists of a copy of court documents from the LEON COUNTY CLERK OF 
COURTS. The documents include a copy of the Complaint (11/12/2012), Probable Cause 
Affidavit (11/06/2012), and Warrant for Arrest (11/14/2012) for the charge of Petit Theft. 

to the documents, admitted to the allegations. 

Exhibit #4 consists of a copy of court documents from the WAKULLA COUNTY CLERK OF 
COURTS. The documents show GAINES was arrested in Wakulla County on I 1/09/2012 
and charged with possession of Schedule 4 narcotic with intent to sale and Trafficking in 

Drugs. According to the documents, GAINES admitted to the allegations. 

INTERVIEW OF ERIC JASEN GAINES ) 
Employment: 

None reported 

Residence: 

7 Lilac Lane 
Crawfordville, Florida 32327 
(850) 566-4001 

KENNEDY contacted GAINES telephonically on 11/16/2012 and notified GAINES of this 
investigation. GAINES scheduled an interview with KENNEDY for 2:30 pm on 11/19/2012. 

On 11/19/2012 KENNEDY received a telephone call from GAINES. GAINES stated he has 
retained an attorney, who has advised GAINES not to speak to KENNEDY. KENNEDY 
advised GAINES to have his attomey fax a letter of representation to KENNEDY. No letter of 
representation has been received as of 11/20/2012. 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

ltn The Order Compelling Examination of 
Eric Jasen Gaines, I, RIP.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 201246863 

ORDER COMPELLING AN EXAMINATION 

The Department of Health (Department) is the state agency charged with 

regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes 

(2012); Chapter 456, Florida Statutes (2012); and Chapter 465, Ida Statutes 

(2012). 

For probable cause shown and pursuant to the authority vested in the 

Department by Chapter 456, Florida Statutes (2012), you are hereby ordered to 

report and submit to a mental and physical examination to be conducted by the 

following named physician at the date, time and place indicated. 

MENTAL AND PHYSICAL EXAMINATION 

Leslie Parsons, D.O. 
329 N. Broad Street 

Thomasville, GA 31792 
(229) 403-1512 

ON 
Wednesday, July 31, 2013 © 1:00 p.m. 

The above-directed mental and physical examination is for the purpose of 

obtaining examination reports and expert opinion and testimony concerning 

your ability to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety pursuant to 



kitHasen Gaines, II, R.P.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

Sections 465.016(1)(m) or 456.072(1)(z), lorida Statutes (2012), and for 

introduction into evidence at any administrative hearing to be conducted on any 

administrative complaint filed against you which may aflege a violation of 

Sections 465.016(1)(m) or 456.072(1)(z), Statutes (2012); This order is 

predicated upon the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. At aH times material to this Order, Eric Gaines, H, (Mr. 

Gaines), was registered pharmacy technician within the state of Florida, having 

been issued registration number RPT 45259, pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida 

Statutes (2012). 

2. On or about October 26, 2012, Publix Loss Prevention Officer, Mr. 

B.H., received a tip from a Publix customer reporting that someone in the Publix 

Pharmacy, located at 5032 Capital Circle SW, Tallahassee, Florida, was selling 

stolen prescription medications from the store. 

3. On or about November 2, 2012, the cameras within the pharmacy 

were repositioned to allow additional monitoring of the events occurring within 

the pharmacy. 

4. The video surveillance taken on November 3, 2012, showed Mr. 

Gaines dumping prescription pills from multiple bottles into his hand and placing 

2 



b.iJasen Gaines, II, R.P.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

the medications into the pocket of his work jacket. The pharmacy manager 

conducted a targeted drug count before Mr. began work on November 

3, 2012, and recounted after Mr. Gaines's shift. The drug count revealed a 

shortage the medications: 

lprazolam 1mg (200 pills taken); lprazolam 2mg (4 

hydrocodone/APAP 5/325mg (115 pills taken); hydrocodone/APAP 

pills taken); hydrocodone/APAP 10/500mg (29 piHs taken). 

5. lprazolam, also known by the brand name Xanax, is prescribed to 

treat anxiety. According to Section 893.03(4), Florida Statutes (2012), 

lprazolam is a Schedule IV controlled substance that has a low potential for 

abuse relative to the substances in Schedule III and has a currently accepted 

medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse of lprazolam may lead to 

limited physical or psychological dependence relative to the substances in 

Schedule III. 

6. Hydrocodone/APAP, also known by the brand name Vicodin, 

contains hydrocodone and acetaminophen, or 

pain. According to Section 893.03(3), Florida 

the dosages found in hydrocodone/APAP is a 

that has a potential for abuse less than the 

3 

Us taken); 

pills taken); 

5/500mg (71 

Tylenol and is prescribed to treat 

Statutes (2012), hydrocodone, in 

Schedule III controlled substance 

substances in Schedules I and II 



Gaines, II, R.P.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

and has a currently accepted medicafi use in treatment in the United States. 

Abuse of the substance may lead to moderate or bw physkal dependence or 

high dependence. 

7. The video surveiHance of November 3, 2012, also showed Mr. 

Gaines consuming liquid hydrocodone in the back of the pharmacy during his 

shift. 

8. On or about November 5, 2012, W. 3.H. conducted an inteMew of 

Mr. Gaines in the presence of the store manager, Ms. J.C. During the interview, 

Mr. Gaines admitted to stealing various controlled substances, including Vicodin, 

Xanax, Tramadol and Percocet, on approximately 10 to 15 occasions during the 

months of August through November, 2012. Mr. Gaines admitted to stealing 

approximately 1,115 pills from the pharmacy during that time. In a written 

statement, Mr. Gaines admitted to consuming some of the pills as well as selling 

or giving away others. 

9. Tramadol, commonly known by the brand name Ultram, is an opioid 

class medication prescribed to treat pain. Tramadol is a legend drug, but not a 

controlled substance. Tramadol, like all opioid-class drugs, can affect mental 

alertness, is subject to abuse, and can be habit forming. 

10. Percocet is a brand name for oxycodone/APAP, which contains 

4 



Gaines, II, R.P.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

oxycodone and acetaminophen or lenol. According to Section 

Florida Statutes (2012), oxycodone is a Schedule II controfled substance that 

has a high potentiafi for abuse and has a currendy accepted but severely 

restricted medical use treatment in the United States. Abuse of oxycodone 

may lead to severe psychological or physical dependence. 

11. Mr. Gaines informed Mr. B.H. and Deputy S.E,, a Leon County 

Deputy, that he &so possessed ionaD at hüs 

home in Crawfordville, Florida. 

12. On or about November 5, 2012, deputies with the Wakulla County 

Sheriff's Office Narcotics Unit conducted a search of Mr. Gaines's home. The 

deputies observed and seized 198 tablets of lprazolam 1mg, 192 tablets of 

lprazolam 0.5mg, 20 tablets of acetaminophen/hydrocodone (unknown dosage 

levels), and 2 Ambien tablets that Mr. Gaines kept behind his headboard. 

Deputies also observed unused syringes that Mr. Gaines kept in his bathroom. 

13. Ambien is the brand name for the drug zolpidem, prescribed to treat 

insomnia. According to Title 21, Section 1308.14, Code of Federal Regulations, 

zolpidem is a Schedule IV controlled substance. Zolpidem can cause 

dependence and is subject to abuse. 

14. Mr. Gaines admitted to Deputy J.P., a deputy with the Wakulla 

5 



Gaines, II, R.P.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

County Sheriff's Office, that he ingested some of the stolen medications and he 

traded other medications for food at a local restaurant. Mr. Gaines told Deputy 

J.P, that giving medications to other people made him feel "cooler." 

about November 5, 2012, Publix terminated Mr. Ga!nes from 

a registered pharmacy technician due to the theft of 

15. On or 

employment as 

medications from the pharmacy. 

16. SectS 456M72(1)(z), Rorida Statutes (2012), states, in pertinent 

part, t]he following acts constitute grounds for which.. disciplinary ]... 
may be taken: b]eing unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety to 

patients by reason of illness or use of alcohol, drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or 

any other type of material or as a result of any mental or physical condition." 

17. Section 456.072(1)(z), Florida Statutes (2012), also states, "the 

department shall have, upon a finding of the State Surgeon General or the state 

Surgeon General's designee that probable cause exists to believe that the 

licensee is unable to practice because of the reasons stated in this paragraph, 

the authority to issue an order to compel a licensee to submit to a mental or 

physical examination by physicians designated by the department." 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The Department of Health, by and through the State Surgeon 

6 



Gaines, II, R.P.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

General, has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Chapters 456 and 465, 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

2. Mr. Gahies admitted to consuming substances 

that he from his loyer. He was lso observed on survefflance 

consuming controlled substances in the workplace while on duty as a registered 

pharmacy technician. Mr. Gaines's behavior indicates that he is experiencing at 

least some lev& of drug dependence, or judgment as a result of drug 

dependence, and may be potentially dangerous if he continues to work in the 

field of pharmacy where he will necessarily be exposed to multiple controlled 

substances. 

3. Therefore, the State Surgeon General, through his undersigned 

designee, concludes that probable cause exists to believe Mr. Gaines is unable 

to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety, pursuant to Sections 

456.072(1)(z) and 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2012). A thorough and 

complete mental and physical examination of Mr. Gaines is necessary to protect 

the public and ensure that he is able to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill 

and safety. 

3. In accordance with the authority vested in the Department of 

Health under Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, the State Surgeon 

7 



L.Jasen Gaines, II, R.P.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

General, through undersigned designee, concludes that Section 

Fbrida Statutes (2012), shou!d be enforced. 

DONE and ORDERED by the Department of Health on this 

____ 

of May, 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon Gener& and 
Sec 

Deputy General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 

COUNSEL FOR DEPARTMENT: 
Louise Wilhite-St Laurent 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Florida bar Number 0091244 
(850) 245 — 4444 ext. 8331 Telephone 
(850) 245 — 4662 Facsimile 

8 



'flnal Order No. DOH-I3-1014.EStJ -%IQA 

FILED PATEJUN 0 42013 
Departm ,t caith 

STATE OF FLORIDA ty Agency Clerk 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

In Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Eric Jasen Gaines, II, R.P.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF LICENSE 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS, State Surgeon General and Secretary 

of Health, ORDERS the emergency suspension of the registration of Ehc 

Jasen Gaines, R.P.T., to practice as a registered pharmacy technician in the 

State of Florida. Mr. Gaines holds registration number RPT 45259. His 

address of record Is 7 Ulac Lane, Crawfordviile, Florida 32327. The 

following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law support the emergency 

suspension of Mr. Gaines's registration to practice as a registered 

pharmacy technician in the State of Florida. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health ("Department") is the state agency 

charged with regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Chapters 20, 

456, and 465, Florida Statutes (2012). Section 456.073(8), Florida 

Statutes (2012), authorizes the State Surgeon General to summarily 

suspend Mr. Gaines's registration to practice as a registered pharmacy 

L4 



In Re: Emergency of the Registration of 
Eric 3asen Gaines, II, R.P.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 201246863 

technician in the State of Florida in accordance with Section 120.60(6), 

ida Statutes , 
2. At all times l to this order, Gaines was a registered 

pharmacy technician in the State of Florida, pursuant to Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes (2012), and worked as a registered pharmacy technician at 

Publix Pharmacy located at 5032 Capital Circle Southwest, Suite 1, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32305. 

3. Onor about October 26, 2012, B.H., a Publix Loss Prevention 

Officer, received a tip from a Publix customer that a pharmacy employee 

named "Eric" was selling stolen prescription medications from the store. 

4. After receiving this information, B.H. ran a report for the 

pharmacy location where Mr. Gaines worked to determine if any 

medications were missing. The report revealed the following 

discrepandes: Xanax 0.5mg was short by 115 tablets; alprazolam 0.5mg 

was short by 168 tablets; temazepam 30mg was short by 12 tablets; 

5/500mg was short by 158 tablets; 

7.5/3.25mg was short by 86 tablets; hydrocodone/APAP 10/325mg was 

short by 65 tablets; and hydrocodone/APAP 10/500mg was short by 99 

tablets. 

2 



5. lprazolam, also 

prescribed to treat anxiety. 

Statutes (2012), lprazolem is a 

a low potential for abuse relative to 

a currently accepted medical use in 

of lprazolam may lead to limited 

relative to the substances in Schedule IlL 

6. Temazepam is prescribed to treat insomnia. 

Section 893.03(4), Florida Statutes (2012), temazepam Is 

controlled substance that has a low potential for abuse 

substances in Schedule I and has a currently accepted 

treatment in the United States. Abuse of temazepam may 

physical or psychological dependence relative to the 

Schedule III. 

7. Hydrocodone/APAP, also known by the brand name Vicodin, 

contains hydrocodone and acetaminophen, or Tylenol and is prescribed to 

treat pain. According to Section 893.03(3), Florida Statutes (2012), 

hydrocodone, in the dosages found in hydrocodone/APAP is a Schedule III 

controlled substance that has a potential for abuse less than the 

3 

In : Emergency Suspension of the Registradon of 
Eric )asen G&nes, II, R.P.T. 
Registadon Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

known by the brand name Xanax, is 

According to Section 893M3(4), Florida 

Schedule N controlled substance that has 

the substances in Schedule III and has 

treatment In the United States. Abuse 

physical or psychological dependence 

According to 

a Schedule IV 

relative to the 

medical use in 

lead to limited 

substances in 

(0 



In Re: &ispension of the Registradon of 
Eric 3asen II, R.P.t 
Registration Number n 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

substances in Schedules I and II and has a currently accepted medical use 

in treatment in the United States. Abuse of the substance may lead to 

moderate or low physicai dependence or high psychological dependence. 

8. On or about November 2, 2012, Publix pharmacy surveillance 

cameras were repositioned for additional monitoring. 

9. The video surveillance taken on November 3, 2012, showed . 
Gaines dumping prescription pills from multiple bottles into his hand and 

placing the medications into the poäket of his work jacket. The pharmacy 

manager conducted a targeted drug count before Mr. Gaines began work 

on November 3, 2012, and recounted after Mr. Gaines's shift. The drug 

count revealed• a shortage of the following medications: 194 pills of 

lprazolam 0.5mg; 200 pills of lprazolam 1mg; 4 pills of lprazolam 2mg; 

115 pills of 5/325mg; 71 pills of 

5/500mg; and 29 pills of hydrocodone/APAP 10/500mg. 

10. The video surveillance from November 3, 2012, also showed 

Mr. Gaines consuming liquid hydrocodone in the back of the pharmacy 

during his shift. 

11. On or about November 5, 2012, B.H. conducted an interview of 

Mr. Gaines in the presence of IC., the store manager. During the 

4 

-7 



In Re: Emesgency Suspension of the Regisoaton of 
Eric Jasen Gaines, , R.P.T. 
Regisbabon Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

interview, Mr. Gaines admitted to stealing various controlled substances, 

induding Vicodin, 7 Tramadol, and Percocet on approximately 10 to 

115 occasions from August 2012 to November 2012. Mr. Sahies itted to 

stealing approximately 1,115 pills from the pharmacy during that time. In 

a written statement, Mr. Gaines admitted to consuming some of the pills as 

well as selling or giving away others. 

12. Tramadol, commonly known by the brand name Ultram, is an 

opioid class medication prescribed to treat pain. Tramadol is a legend 

drug, but not a controlled substance. Tramadol, like all opioid-class drugs, 

can affect mental alertness, Is subject to abuse, and can be habit forming. 

13. Percocet is a brand name for oxycodone/APAP, which contains 

oxycodone and acetaminophen or Tylenol. According to Section 893.03(2), 

Florida Statutes (2012), oxycodone is a Schedule I controlled substance 

that has a high potential for abuse and has a currently accepted but 

severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse of 

oxycodone may lead to severe psychological or physical dependence. 

14. On or about November 5, 2012, S.E., a Leon County Sheriff's 

Deputy, interviewed Mr. Gaines. Mr. Gaines informed S.E. that once he 

began providing stolen pills to friends and acquaintances, it made Mr. 

5 



In Re: Emergency Sispension of the RegltaUon of 
Eiic Jasen ines, U, LPJ. 
Reglstraton Number Rfl 45259 

Case Number 2012-16863 

Gaines feel good that people wanted something from him. 

15. Mr. Gaines also informed 3.H. and S.E. that he possessed 

additional stolen medication at his home ñn Crawfordvffle, Florida. 

16. On or about November 5, 2012, deputies with the Wakulla 

County Sheriff's Office Narcotics Unit conducted a search of Mr. Gaines's 

home. The deputies observed and seized 198 tablets of lprazolam 1mg, 

192 tablets of lprazofam .5mg, 20 tablets of 

lnophen/hydrocodone of unknown dosage levels, and 2 Ambien 

tablets; Mr. Gaines kept all of the seized medications behind his 

headboard. Deputies also observed unused syringes that Mr. Gaines kept 

in his bathroom. 

17. Ambien is the brand name for the drug zolpidem, prescribed to 

treat insomnia. According to Title 21, Section 1308.14, Code of Federal 

Regulations, zolpidem is a Schedule IV controlled substance. Zolpidem can 

cause dependence and is subject to abuse. 

18. Mr. Gaines admitted to 32., a deputy with the Wakulla County 

Sheriff's Office, that he ingested some of the stolen medications himself 

and traded other medications for food at a local restaurant. Mr. Gaines 

told 3.P. that supplying pills to his friends made him feel "cooler." 

6 

'1 





In Re: Emergency Suspension of the RegistraUon of 
Eric )asen Gaines, , R.P.T. 

Number Rfl 45259 
Case Numbet 16W 

technician. 

23. As a result of his employment as a registered pharmacy 

technidan, Mr. was aware that prescription ions and 

controlled substances may only be dispensed to patients with prescriptions 

who need the medications for a legitimate health reason. Despite this, . 
Gaines illegally dispensed and distributed controlled substances to his 

friends, acquaintances and himself while knowing that no legitimate 

medical reason existed for the dispensing of the substances. 

24. Mr. Gaines's lack of good judgment and moral character, his 

use of non-prescribed controlled substances while working, his illegal 

distribution of stolen controlled substances to individuals without a medical 

necessity, and his disregard for the laws and rules governing the practice 

of pharmacy in the State of Florida represent a significant likelihood that 

Mr. Gaines will cause harm to the general public. This probability 

constitutes an immediate serious danger to the health, safety, and welfare 

of the citizens of the State of Florida. Restricting Mr. Gaines's registration 

would not adequately protect the public because the very nature of 

practicing as a registered pharmacy technician puts Mr. Gaines in contact 

with legend drugs and controlled substances, which creates the risk hr 

8 

I 



In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Etic Jasen Gaines, I, R.PJ. 
Regitation Number Rfl 45259 

Case Number 2012-16863 

further theft and distribution of the controlled substances. As a result, 

nothing short of the immediate suspension of Mr. Gaines's registration to 

practice as a registered pharmacy technician protect the from 

this danger. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General 

concludes as follows: 

1. The State Surgeon General of the Department of Health has 

jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Sections 20.43 and 456.073(8), 

Florida Statutes (2012), and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes (2012), as set 

forth above. 

2. Section 465.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes (2012), subjects 

registered pharmacy technicians to discipline, including suspension as 

specified in SectIon 456.072(2), Florida Statutes (2012), for 

cjompounding, dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, including any 

controlled substance, other than in the course of the professional 

practice of pharmacy." 

3. Mr. Gaines violated Section 465.016(1)(i) by: 

a. Dispensing or dIstributing alprazolam, or Xanax, to himself, 

9 

- 



In Re: Em&gency of the Registration of 
Eric Jasen Gaines, U, R.P.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

and/or to friends or acquaintances, outside of the practice of 

pharmacy; 

b. Dispensing or 0 or to 

himself, and/or to friends or acquaintances, outside of the 

practice of pharmacy; 

c. Dispensing or distributing tramadol to himself and/or to friends 

or acquaintances, outside of the practice of pharmacy; 

d. Dispensing or distributing oxycodone/APAP to himself and/or to 

friends or acquaintances, outside of the practice of pharmacy; 

and/or 

e. Dispensing or distributing Ambien to himself and/or to friends 

or acquaintances, outside of the practice of pharmacy. 

4. Section 120.60(6), Florida StatUtes (2012), authorIzes the 

Department to suspend a registered pharmacy technician's registration 

upon a finding that the registered pharmacy technidan presents an 

immediate, serious danger to the public health, safety or welfare. 

5. Mr. Gaines's continued ability to practice as a registered 

pharmacy technician constitutes an Immediate serious danger to the 

health, safety, or welfare of the public and this summary procedure is fair 

10 

(5 



In Re: Suspension of the Regisbatfon of 
Eric 3asen Gains, , R.P.T. 
Registraton Number Rfl 45259 
Case Number 2012-16863 

under the circumstances to adequately protect the public. 

In accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2012), it is 

ORDERED 

1. The registration of Eric Jasen Gaines, II, registration number 

RPT 45259, is immediately suspended. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal discipline of the registration of . 
Gaines to practice as a registered pharmacy technician will be promptly 

instituted and acted upon in compliance with Sections 120.569 and 

120.60(6), Florida Statues (2012). 

DONE and ORDERED this of , 2013. 

JohjiM. Armstrong, MD, EkCS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

PREPARED BY: 
Louise Wilhite-St Laurent 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0091244 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245 1111 x8331 

(850) 245-4662 
Email: Louise_StLaurent@doh.state.fl. us 

11 

K 



In Re: Emergency Stspenslon of the of 
tic 3asen Gaines, , R.PJ. 
Regltation Number RPT45259 

Case Number 2012-16863 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Ptwsuant to Sections and Statute, ths 

Order is judicially reviewable. Review proceedings are governed by the 

Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure. Review proceedings are commenced 

by filing a Petition for Review, in accordance with Flàrida Rule of Appellate 

Procedure 9.100, with the District Court of Appeal, accompanied by a filing 

fee prescribed by law, and a copy of the Petition with the Agency aerk of 

the Department within 30 days of the date this Order is filed. 

12 

- 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
Department of Health 
ELECTION OF RIGHTS - 

DOH v. Eric Jasen Gaines, II, R.P.T. DOH Case Number 201 2-1 6863 

PLEASE SELECT ONLY I OF THE 3 OPTIONS :. 3 

An Explanation of Rights is attached. If you do not understand these options, please consult with your attorney or contact the attorney for 
the Prosecution S rvices Unit at the address/phone number listed at the bottom of this form. 

OPTION 1. 

______ 

I do not dispute the allegations of fact in the Administrative Complaint, but do wish to be accorded a hearing, pursuant to 
Section 120. (2), Florida Statutes, at which time I will be permitted to submit oral and/or written evidence in mitigation of the complaint to the 
Board. 

OPTION 2. 

______ 

I do not dispute the allegations of fact contained in the Administrative Complaint and waive my right to object or to be 
heard. I request thnt the Board enter a final order pursuant to Section 120.57, Florida Statutes. 

OPTION 3.' — I do dispute the allegations of fact contained in the Administrative Complaint and request this to be considered a petition for 
formal pursuant to Sections 120.569(2)(a) and 120.57(1), Florida Statutes, before an Administrative Law Judge appointed by the Division of 
Administrative Heanngs. I specifically dispute the following paragraphs of the Administrative Complaint: 

In addftjon to the above selection, also elect the : 
I accept the terms of the Settlement Stipulation, have signed and am returning the Settlement Stipulation or I , interested 
in settling this case. 

I do not wish to continue practicing, have signed and returned the voluntary relinquishment of licensure form, if it has been 
provided. 

Regardless of which option I have selected, I understand that I will be given notice of time, date, and place when this matter 
is to be considered by the Board for Final Action. Mediation under 120.573, Fjaridajtatutes, is not available in this matter. 

(Please sign and complete a!l the information below) . 

— , / 

Lic.No._ 
- 

Phone No. — , , 
-r 

FAXNo. 1 - -. 
— ' / 

E-Mail , 
STATE OF FLORIDA / 
COUNTY OF______________________________ 

Before me, personally appeared . — - ?falikne2 jf. , whose identity is known tome or by 

(type of identification) and who, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

b ant b or day of 
, 2013. 

Nolay Publi onda My Cor 

1. / C ttfl VLCJ 3 * 
Type or Print Name 

B 
Se*e$ 

PLEASE MAIL AND/OR FAX COMPLETED FORM TO: Louise Wllhite-St. Laurent, Assistant General Services Unit, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin E, Tallahassee Florida 32399-3265. Telephone Number: (850) 2454444, ext 8331; FAX (850) 245- '62; TDD 1-800-955-8771 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

CASE 0 2012-16863 

ERIC JASEN GAINES, II, RPT, 

Respondent. 

/ 
MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION ) 
COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through undersigned 

counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry of a Final Order 

assessing costs against the Respondent for the investigation and 

prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 456.072(4), Florida 

Statutes (2003). As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Pharmacy 

will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary action and will 

enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes (2003),' states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed through final 
order, or citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001, 

'Ch. 2003-416, § 19, Laws of Fla., effective September 15, 2003, amended Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes 
(2003), to include the underlined language. 

DOH v. Christopher T. Duffy, RPT 
DQH Case Number 2012-04814 



pursuant to this section or discipline imposed through 
final order, or citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001, 
for a violation of any practice act, the board, or the 
department when there is not board, shall assess costs 
related to the investigation and prosecution of the case. 
Such costs related to the investigation and prosecution 
include, but are not limited to, salaries and benefits of 
personnel. costs related to the time spent by the attorney 
and other øersonnel working on the case. and any other 
expenses incurred by the department for the case. The 
board, or the department when there is no board, shall 
determine the amount of costs to be assessed after its 
consideration of an affidavit of itemized costs and any 
written obiections . . . . (emphasis added) 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted in 

costs in the total amount of $6,072.92, based on the following itemized 

statement of costs: 

a. Total costs for Complaints $82.35 
b. Total costs for Investigations $1,515.75 
c. Total costs for Legal $2,052.68 
d. Total costs for expenses $2,422.14 

Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $6,072.92, as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of the 

costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests that the 

DOll V. Ertc Jasen Gaines, , REF 2 
DOH Case Number 2012-16863 





CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

to Assess Costs has been by US. day of 

Crawfordville, Florida 32327. 

LS I m Ia 

2013 to Eric Jasen Gaines, II, RPT, 7 Lilac Lane, 

DOH V. Eric .Jasen Gaines, LI, RPT 4 
DOH Case Number 2012-16863 

Louise Wilhite-St. 
Assistant General Counsel 

urent 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 2012-16863 (Department of Health v. Eric Jasen 
Gaines, II, R.P.T.) are SIX THOUSAND SEVENTY-TWO DOLLARS 
AND NINETY-TWO CENTS ($6,072.92). 

6) The costs for DOH case numbers 2012-16863 (Department of Health 
v. Eric Jasen Gaines, II, R.P.T.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost 
Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 2012-1 6863 
(Department of Health v. Eric Jasen Gaines, II, RPT) are detailed in 

Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and 
receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 
keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 

I of2 



and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me of , 2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is personally known to me. 

I 

Expires September 25,2016 
Thu Tmy 

\citri 
Name of Notary 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 



huit C©st 
Number: 2011216863 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: GAINES. ERIC JASEN II 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IRMOOTIMETRAKICSDETL.ASP 8/26/2013 

L ***** Cost to Date 

____________________ Hours Costs 

1.501 582.35 

23.90 51,515.75 l: 19.30 52,052.68 

0.10 53.33 
********** ********** 

Total: 
I 

Oj $3,654.11 I 

Expenses to Date: $2,418.81 

Amorntt: l 
Costs to Date: 56,072.921 



ol
 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

ur
an

ce
 

M
Q

A
 

C
 O

N
F 
E

 NT 
IA

L
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

16
86

3 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

t 
H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
l 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/2
6/

20
13

 
Pa

ge
 1

 
of

4 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 

IC
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 U

N
IT

 
I 

H
C

O
8 

0.
10

 
$3

3.
33

 
$3

.3
3 

06
/0

4/
20

13
 

11
9 

R
E

V
IE

W
IN

G
 F

O
/C

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

&
T

E
R

M
IN

P
U

T
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

0.
10

 
$3

.3
3 

IC
O

N
S

U
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

H
A

13
2 

0.
90

 
$5

4.
90

 
l-1

A
23

 
0.

10
 

$5
4.

90
 

H
A

I3
2 

0.
30

 
$5

4.
90

 
13

2 
0.

20
 

$5
4.

90
 

$4
9.

41
 

$5
.4

9 
$1

6.
47

 

$1
0.

98
 

11
/1

5/
20

12
 

11
/1

6/
20

12
 

04
/1

2/
20

13
 

06
/0

7/
20

13
 

25
 

14
4 

35
 

35
 

R
E

V
IE

W
C

A
S

E
F

IL
E

 
C

S
U

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

T
E

LE
P

H
O

N
E

 C
A

LL
S

 
T

E
LE

P
H

O
N

E
 C

A
LL

S
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

1.
50

 
88

2.
35

 

IIN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

14
5 

1.
20

 
$6

1.
19

 
¶7

3.
43

 
11

/1
6/

20
12

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

14
5 

1.
10

 
$6

1.
19

 
$6

7.
31

 
11

/1
6/

20
12

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

S
6 

0.
50

 
$6

1.
19

 
$3

0.
60

 
11

/1
6/

20
12

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

L 
T

IM
E

 
15

6 
0.

10
 

$6
1.

19
 

$6
.1

2 
11

/1
6/

20
12

 
1 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 D

U
T

IE
S

 
14

5 
0.

20
 

$6
1.

19
 

$1
2.

24
 

11
/1

9/
20

12
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
C

I4
5 

0.
40

 
$6

1.
19

 
$2

4.
48

 
11

/1
9/

20
12

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

14
5 

1.
30

 
$6

1.
19

 
$7

9.
55

 
11

/2
0/

20
12

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

C
I4

5 
1.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$7
6.

78
 

12
/1

0/
20

12
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
14

5 
0.

90
 

$6
3.

98
 

$5
7.

58
 

01
/0

2/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
C

I4
5 

0.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

.4
0 

01
/0

8/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
14

5 
0.

80
 

$6
3.

98
 

$5
1.

18
 

01
/1

6/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
C

I4
5 

0.
90

 
$6

3.
98

 
$5

7.
58

 
01

/2
3/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

C
I4

5 
1.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$7
6.

78
 

01
/2

4/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
14

5 
0.

10
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
01

/3
1/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

C
I4

5 
0.

40
 

$6
3.

98
 

$2
5.

59
 

02
/I 

1/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

1N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 



D
iv

hi
on

 
**

* 
C

 0
 N

 F
 I

D
E

 N
 T

I A
L

 *
**

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
u,

an
ce

 

lt,
,/I

 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 

__
__

__
__

__
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

16
86

3 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/2
6/

20
13

 
P

ag
e 

2 
of

 4
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

14
5 

.1
0 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
02

/1
8/

20
13

 
6 

SU
PP

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
14

5 
0.

40
 

$6
3.

98
 

$2
5.

59
 

02
/2

1/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
14

5 
0.

40
 

$6
3.

98
 

$2
5.

59
 

02
/2

1/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
14

5 
0.

10
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
03

/0
7/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

04
5 

1.
30

 
$6

3.
98

 
$8

3.
17

 
03

/1
2/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

LI
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

04
5 

0.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

.4
0 

03
/2

8/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
C

l4
5 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
04

/0
3/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

14
5 

0.
70

 
$6

3.
98

 
$4

4.
79

 
04

/0
4/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

14
5 

0.
70

 
$6

3.
98

 
$4

4.
79

 
04

/1
7/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

15
2 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
04

/1
7/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

14
5 

2.
30

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

47
.1

5 
04

/1
8/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

04
5 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
04

/2
2/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

C
14

5 
0.

40
 

$6
3.

98
 

$2
5.

59
 

10
9/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

14
5 

0.
80

 
$6

3.
98

 
$5

1.
18

 
05

/1
3/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

C
14

5 
0.

40
 

$6
3.

98
 

$2
5.

59
 

05
/1

5/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
C

15
5 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
05

/1
5/

20
 1

3 
1 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 D

U
T

IE
S

 
C

I4
5 

1.
90

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

21
.5

6 
06

/0
7/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

14
5 

0.
40

 
$6

3.
98

 
$2

5.
59

 
07

/2
2/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

04
5 

1.
30

 
$6

3.
98

 
$8

3.
17

 
08

/0
8/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

C
I4

5 
1.

40
 

$6
3.

98
 

$8
9.

57
 

08
/0

9/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

23
.9

0 
$1

,5
15

.7
5 

IP
R

O
S

E
C

U
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

H
LL

5A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
11

/1
9/

20
12

 
25

 
IL

E
 

IB
 

0.
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

0.
64

 
11

/2
0/

20
12

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 
IB

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

9!
 

11
/2

7/
20

12
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
SE

 F
IL

E
 

1B
 

0.
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

0.
64

 
11

/2
7/

20
12

 
10

3 
R

E
V

IE
W

 S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 

IB
 

0.
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

0.
64

 
12

/0
4/

20
12

 
60

 
M

IS
C

E
LL

A
N

E
O

U
S

 
IB

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

01
/0

8/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
SE

 F
IL

E
 

IB
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
03

/0
7/

20
13

 
11

5 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T

 W
IT

H
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
O

R
S

 
H

L
L

9I
B

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

03
/1

9/
20

13
 

10
3 

R
E

V
IE

W
SU

PP
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

L
R

E
PO

R
T

 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 iN
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 -

- 
ite

m
iz

ed
co

st
 



0i
4,

io
no

l 
**

* 
C

O
N

 F
ID

 E
N

 T
I A

L 
**

* 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

__
__

__
__

__
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

16
86

3 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/2
6/

20
13

 
P

ag
e 

3 
of

 4
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

IB
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
03

/2
8/

20
13

 
11

5 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T

 W
IT

H
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
O

R
S 

IB
 

0.
10

 
$1

06
35

 
$1

0.
64

 
04

/0
8/

20
13

 
35

 
T

E
LE

P
H

O
N

E
 C

A
LL

S
 

H
LL

9I
B

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

04
/0

8/
20

13
 

70
 

C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

S
 W

IT
h 

LA
W

Y
E

R
S

 
H

LL
9I

B
 

0.
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

0.
64

 
04

/1
8/

20
13

 
11

5 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T

 W
IT

H
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

O
R

S
 

H
LL

9I
B

 
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

0.
64

 
04

/2
2/

20
13

 
S

 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T

 W
IT

H
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

O
R

S
 

H
LL

9I
B

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

04
/2

9/
20

13
 

10
3 

R
E

V
IE

W
 S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 
H

LL
9I

B
 

0.
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

0.
64

 
05

/1
5/

20
13

 
11

5 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T

 W
IT

H
E

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

O
R

S
 

IB
 

0.
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

0.
64

 
05

/1
7/

20
13

 
10

3 
R

E
V

IE
W

 S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 

H
LL

9I
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

05
/1

7/
20

13
 

26
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
O

R
R

E
V

IS
E

M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 
IB

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

05
/1

7/
20

13
 

10
3 

IE
W

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

LR
E

P
O

R
T

 
IB

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

05
/1

7/
20

13
 

26
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
E

 M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 
O

IB
 

1.
30

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

38
.2

6 
05

/2
1/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

C
A

S
E

F
IL

E
 

I B 
2.

00
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
12

.7
0 

05
/2

1/
20

13
 

40
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F

 A
 P

LE
A

D
IN

G
 

H
LL

IO
I B

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$3

1.
91

 
05

/2
4/

20
 1

3 
40

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 O

F
 A

 P
LE

A
D

IN
G

 
H

LL
IO

 I 
B

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

05
/2

4/
20

13
 

40
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F

 A
 P

LE
A

D
IN

G
 

H
LL

IO
IB

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

05
/2

9/
20

13
 

81
 

E
S

O
/E

R
O

 
IB

 
0.

80
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$8
5.

08
 

06
/0

4/
20

13
 

28
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
O

R
R

E
V

IS
E

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
H

LL
IO

IB
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
06

/0
5/

20
13

 
28

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

O
R

R
E

V
IS

E
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

H
LL

IO
IB

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

06
/0

6/
20

13
 

89
 

P
R

O
B

A
B

LE
 C

A
U

S
E

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
O

IB
 

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

06
/1

0/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

LE
P

H
O

N
E

C
A

LL
S

 
H

LL
IO

IB
 

0.
50

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$5

3.
18

 
06

/l1
/2

0P
3 

89
 

P
R

O
B

A
B

LE
 C

A
U

S
E

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
H

LL
IO

I B
 

0.
30

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$3

1.
91

 
06

/1
3/

20
 1

3 
63

 
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

 C
A

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

R
O

B
A

B
LE

 C
A

U
S

E
 P

A
N

E
L 

H
LL

IO
IB

 
2.

00
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
12

.7
0 

06
/1

3/
20

13
 

28
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
O

R
R

E
V

1S
E

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
H

LL
IO

I 
B

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

06
/1

3/
20

 1
3 

63
 

P
R

E
S

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 C

A
S

E
S

 T
O

 P
R

O
B

A
B

LE
 C

A
U

S
E

 P
A

N
E

L 
IB

 
2.

00
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
12

.7
0 

06
/1

3/
20

13
 

28
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
O

R
R

E
V

IS
E

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
H

LL
IO

IB
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
06

/2
0/

20
13

 
89

 
P

R
O

B
A

B
LE

 C
A

U
S

E
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

O
IB

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

06
/2

0/
20

13
 

63
 

P
R

E
S

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 C

A
S

E
S

 T
O

 P
R

O
B

A
B

LE
 C

A
U

S
E

 P
A

N
E

L 
IL

LI
O

IB
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
06

/2
0/

20
13

 
89

 
P

R
O

B
A

B
LE

 C
A

U
S

E
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

H
LL

IO
IB

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

06
/2

0/
20

13
 

63
 

P
R

E
S

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 C

A
S

E
S

 T
O

 P
R

O
B

A
B

LE
 C

A
U

S
E

 P
A

N
E

L 
H

LL
IO

IB
 

0.
50

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$5

3.
18

 
08

/1
4/

20
13

 
91

 
B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
IO

IB
 

0.
30

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$3

1.
91

 
08

/1
5/

20
13

 
91

 
B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- 

F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 —

 
ite

m
iz

ed
co

st
 



of
 

C
 O

N
 F

 I
D

 E
 N

T
 H

A
L

 *
**

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

h1
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

16
86

3 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/2
6/

20
13

 
P

ag
e 

4 
of

 4
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

19
.3

0 
52

,0
52

.6
8 

T
ot

al
 C

os
t 

$3
,6

54
.!!

 

I 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

 F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
ni

ze
de

os
t 



O
iti

on
o?

 
**

* 
C

O
N

 F
 I

D
 E

N
 T

I 
A

L
 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

si
it 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

16
86

3 

R
ep

or
tU

at
e:

 
08

/2
6/

20
13

 
P

ag
e 
I 

S
ta

ll 
C

od
e 

E
xp

en
se

 
D

at
e 

E
xp

en
se

 
A

m
ou

nt
 

E
xp

en
se

 
C

od
e 

E
xp

en
se

 C
od

e 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

I 
SE

R
V

IC
E

S 
I B 

06
/I

 8
/2

01
3 

$1
8.

81
 

13
31

00
 

L
E

G
A

L
 &

 O
FF

IC
IA

L
 A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

E
M

E
N

T
S 

l $2
,4

18
.8

! 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

$2
,4

18
.8

1 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 -
- 

ite
m

iz
ed

ex
pe

ns
e 



Rick Scott Mission: I I 

Governor To protect, promote & improve the health 
I I 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
I 
: 

state, oDunly & oDmrnunlty efforts. I 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

HEPJ.]1—f 
I 

State Surgeon General & Swetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State In the Nation 

August 27, 2013 

Eric Jansen Gaines, II, RP.T. 
7 Lilac Lane 
Crawfordville, Florida 32327 

Re: DOH vs. Eric Jansen Gaines, II, R.P.T. 
DOH Case Number 2012-16563 

Dear Mr. Gaines: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of 
material fact executed by you on July 8, 2013 concerning the above referenced case. This means that 
the facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction 
because, by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary case. 
Since you are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, you are not admitting 
the facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, you are agreeing not to contest these facts 
and to limit presentation to legal argument, if any, and to matters in mitigation or extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing for this case to be presented at the next regularly scheduled 
meeting of the Florida Board of Pharmacy. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact this office. 

Assistant General Counsel 

John H. Armstrong, MD 
Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

LSLJmIa 
Enclosures 

Florida Department of Health 
www.FloridasHealth.com of the General Counsel ' Prosecution Unft 

ITTER:HealthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C.65 Tallahassee, FL 32399A701 
FACEBOOK:FLOepartiientofhealth Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

VOUTUBE: fidoh PHONE: 8501245.4444 'FAX 8501245.466X 



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

HEALTH 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

VS. 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, 
RESPONDENT. 

TO: LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK 
P0 BOX 151572 
TAMPA, FL 33684 

CASE NO. 201301501 

NOTICE 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on October 9, 2013, commencing at 9:00a.m. Although the Respondent is not required to be present, 
it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan 
Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9:00a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9:00a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 18th day of September, 2013. 

Florida Department of Health 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance 
4052 Bald Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 
PRONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
YOUTIJBE: fldoh 

Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nafion 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

Surgeon General & Sec 

'ye Director 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 



Mission: 
• To promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
state county & community efforts. 

HEALTh 
Rick Scott 

Governor 

Jcfln Ii. Annatrong, MD, FACS 

Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
Mark Whitten, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
Lauren Leikam, General Counsel 
Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 
DOH v. Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. 

DOH Case Number: 2013-01501 

DATE: August 19, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the October 9, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: 
Subject's Address of 
Record: 

Enforcement Address: 

Prior Discipline: 
Probable Cause Panel: 

Subject's Attorney: 

Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. 
P.O. Box 151572 
Tampa, FL 33684 
Hardee Work Camp 
DC#: 179719 
6901 State Road 62 
Bowling Green, Florida 33834 

8527 Rank: R.P.T. 

899 

11/17/2009 

No 

No 

No 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel' Prosecution Services Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4683 

.com 
ITTER:HeaIthyFLA lealth 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 

TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 
SUBJECT: 

Subject's License No: 

Licensure File No: 

Initial Licensure Date: 
Board Certification: 
Required to Appear: 
Current IPN/PRN Contract: 
Allegation(s): Ct. 1: Violated Section 456.072(1)(c), F.S. (2012) 

Ct. 2: Violated Section 456.072(1)(x), F.S. (2012) 

None 

March 8, 2013 

Weiser & Meshad 

Pro Se 



Complainant/Address: Department Of Health/Bureau Of Operations 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues 

of Material Fact for Final Order 
Administrative Complaint 
Motion to Assess Costs 

Exhibit A -Affidavit of Fees 
Exhibit 1- Complaint Cost Summary 

Exhibit 2- Itemized Cost by Complaint 
Board Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 
Defense Attorney/Respondent Documents 
Prosecutor's Documents 
PCP Memo 
Emergency Suspension Order (entire packet) 

Affidavit of Diligent Search 
Certified Mail Receipt 
Administrative Weekly 

Final Investigative Report 
Exhibits 1-2 

LAL/bhh 

DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES: 

Section )(c). Florida Statutes (2012'): Being convicted or found guilty of, or 

entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any 

jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, a licensee's 

profession. 

Minimum: Misdemeanor- $1,000.00 fine/ Felony- $3,000 fine and one (1) year probation 

Maximum: Misdemeanor- Revocation /Felony— Revocation 

Section )(x). Florida Statutes ): Failing to report to the board, or the 

department if there is no board, in writing within 30 days after the licensee has been 

convicted or found guilty of, or entered a plea of nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction. 

Florida Department of Health .com 
Office of the General Counsel ProsecuUon Services Unit TWITFER:HealthyFLA 

4052 BaW Cypress Way. Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fldoh 

FAX 850/245-4683 



Minimum: $1,000.00 fine 

Maximum: Revocation 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: INFORMAL HEARING 

This is a two count administrative complaint alleging Respondent violated Section 

456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), and Section 456.072(1)(x), Florida Statutes (2012). 

On or about October 31, 2012, Respondent entered a plea of guilty to one (1) count of 

trafficking in illegal drugs twenty-eight (28) grams to twenty (20), kilograms, a first degree 

felony, in violation of Section 893.135(1)(c)(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012); and one (1) count 

of grand theft, a third degree felony, in violation of Section 812.014(2)(c)(2), Florida Statutes 

(2012). Respondent failed to report his pleas to the department or board within thirty days 

from the date Respondent entered the pleas. 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel Prosecition Services Unit TWITTER:HeaWiyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartnentolHealth 
Express mail address: 2565 Merchants Row - Suite 105 IUBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 8501245-4444 FAX 8501245-4683 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, , 
v. CASE NO. 2013-01501 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAM BRICK, R.PST., 

Respondent 

_________________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER AFTER HEARING NOT INVOLVING 
DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACTS 

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, by and through its undersigned counsel, 

and moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order in the above- 

styled cause on a date and time that has been determined and noticed by the 

Board. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner would state the following: 

1. Petitioner previously filed an Administrative Complaint against 

Respondent alleging that Respondent had violated the provisions of Florida 

Statutes, as set forth therein. The Department, by filing the Administrative 

Complaint, is seeking to discipline the Respondent's license to practice as a 

Registered Pharmacy Technician, thereby affecting the Respondent's 

substantial interests. 



2. On or about April th, 2013, Petitioner served Respondent with 

the Administrative Complaint via Certified Mail at the Hardee Work Camp, 

DC#T79719, 6901 State Road 62, Bowling Green, Florida 33834, and P.O. 

Box 15152, Tampa, Florida 33684, at the Respondent's address of record 

with the Department of Health. The Department, by serving the 

Respondent with the Administrative Complaint, provided the Respondent 

written notice of its dedsion to seek thsdpHne of the Respondent's 

to practice as a Registered Pharmacy Technician. 

3. The Respondent has filed an Election of Rights Form or other 

responsive pleading evincing, or has otherwise indicated, that Respondent 

does not dispute the material facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

4. There are no disputed issues of material fact to be resolved by 

the Board. 

5. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case shall be furnished to the Board to 

establish a prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Administrative Complaint. 



WHEREFORE the parties respectfully request the Board of Pharmacy, 

after allowing the Respondent the opportunity to present oral and/or 

written evidence mitigation of the Administrative Complaint, enter a Final 

Order imposing whatever discipline upon the Respondent's license that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

Respectfully submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State urgeon Gen ral and Secretary of Health 

LAUREN A. LEIKAM 
Assistant General Counsel 
Florida Bar No.: 0887700 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile (850) 245-4683 
Email: lauren_leikam@doh.state.fl.us 



correct copy of the foregoing Motion for 

Order by Hearing Not lving 
been furnished via U.S. mail to: 

R.P.T., of POST OFFICE BOX 

and TIlE HARDEE WORK CAMP, 

62, BOWLING GREEN, FLORIDA 

day of , 2013. 

LAUREN A. LEIKAM 

Assistant General Counsel 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and 

Determination of Waiver and for Final 

Disputed Issues of Material Fact has 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, 

151572 TAMPA, FLORIDA 33684, 

DC#T79719, 6901 STATE ROAD 

33834 on, this / 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OFFIEALTH, 

v CASE NO. 2013-01501 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, R.PJO 

RESPONDENt 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T., 

and in support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

registered pharmacy technician within the State of Florida, having been 

issued license number RPT 8527. 



3. Respondent's address of record is RO. Box 151572, Tampa, 

Florida 33684. 

4. On or about October 31, 2012, in the Circuit Court of the 

Thirteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Hilisborough County, Florida, in case 

number 12-CF-007394, Respondent entered a plea of guilty to one (1) 

count of trafficking in illegal drugs twenty-eight (28) grams to twenty (20) 

kilograms, a first degree felony, in violation of Section 893.135(1)(c)1.c., 

Florida Statutes (2012); and one (1) count of grand theft, a third degree 

felony, in violation of Section 812.014(2)(c)2., Florida Statutes (2012). 

5. Respondent failed to report the above referenced pleas to the 

Board of Pharmacy wIthin thirty (30) days after the date Respondent 

enterS the pleas. ! 
6. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 

through five (5) as if fully set forth herein. 

7. Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of guilty or ncE 

contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which 

Depaitnent of Healthy. Lamonte George Hambrldc R.P.T. 2 

Case No.; 2013-01501 



relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, a licensee's profession, 

constitutes grounds for discipline. 

8. As set forth above, on or about October 31, 2012, Respondent 

entered a plea of guilty to one (1) count of trafficking in illegal drugs 

twenty-eight (28) grams to twenty (20) kilograms, in violation of Section 

893.135(1)(c)1.c., Florida Statutes (2012); and one (1) count of grand 

theft, In violation of Section 812.014(2)(c)2., Florida Statutes (2012); which 

are crimes that relate to the practice of the licensee's profession as a 

registered pharmacy technician. 

9. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by being convicted or found guilty 

of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a crime In any jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or 

the ability to practice, a licensee's profession. 

COUNT II 

10. Petitioner reatleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 

through five (5) as If fully set forth herein. 

11. Section 456.072(1)(X), Florida Statutes (2012), provides 

failing to report to the board, or the department if there is no board, in 

Department of Health v, Lamonte Hambddc R.P.T. 3 

Case 2013'OlSOl 



writing within 30 days after the licensee has been convicted or found guilty 

of, or entered, a plea of nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a 

crime in any jurisdiction, constitutes grounds for discipline. 

12. As set forth above, Respondent failed to timely report to the 

board in writing his pleas of guilt in the above-referenced criminal case 

within thirty (30) days after date Respondent entered the pleas. 

13. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

Florida Statutes (2012), failing to report to the board, or the 

department if there is no board, in writing within 30 days after the licensee 

has been convicted or found guilty of, or entered a plea of nob contendere 

to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction. 

Deparbilent of Health v. Larmnte George Hambrldc, LP.T. 4 

Case No.: 2013-01501 



WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other reflef that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

______ 

day of 

________________. 

2013. 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Lauren A. Lelkam 
Assistant General Counsel 
Eta. Bar No. 0088700 
Florida Department of Health 

F 
Office of the General Counsel 

HEALT 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 

CLERK 
DEPUn CLERK 

H 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 

DATE 
ngel Sanders Telephone: (850) 245 1111 

S Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

/LAL 

PCP Members: 

Department of Health v. Lamonte Geage Hambñck, R.P.T. S 

Case No.: 2013-01501 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

v. CASE NO.: 2013-01501 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, R.PJO, 

Respondent 

_____________________________________I 

MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION 456.072(41 

COMES NOW, the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry of a 

Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the investigation 

and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 456.072(4), 

Florida Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of 

Pharmacy will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary 

action and will enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or after 



July 1, 2001, pursuant to this section or discipline 
imposed through final order, or citation, entered 
on or after July 1, 2001, for a violation of any 
practice act, the board, or the department when 
there is not board, shall assess costs related to the 
investigation and prosecution of the case. Such 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution 
include, but are not limited to, salaries and 
benefits of personnel, costs related to the time 
spent by the Y and other personnel working 
on the case, and any other expenses incurred by 
the department for the case. The board, or the 

artment when there is no board, shall 
determine the amount of costs to be assessed 
after its consideration of an affidavit of itemized 
costs and any written objections . . . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted in 

costs in the total amount of $1,125.96, based on the following itemized 

statement of costs: 

***** Cost to Date ***** 

Hours Costs 

Complaint: 1 $43.92 

Investigation: 1 $589.57 

Legal: 
] 

1 $489.25 

Compliance: 0.10 3.221 

jSub Tothl: [ $1,125.96] 

Expenses to Date: so.oo] 

Prior Amount: 
I I $o.ool 

Total Costs to Date: I 1 
2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $636.71 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. Should the Respondent the written objethons to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of the 

costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests that the 

Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based upon its 

consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any timely-filed 

written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and 

assess costs in the amount of $636.71 as supported by competent, 

substantial evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any other 

discipline imposed by the Board and is in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the Board 

of Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent 

in the amount of $636.71. 

3 



DATED this 

_____ 

of , 2013 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John F-I. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Statç'Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

a _ 
LAUREN A. LEIKAM 
Assistant General Counsel 
Florida Bar No. 0887700 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email:lauren_Ieikam@doh.stat.fl.us 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing Motion to Assess Cost has been provided by U.S. mail this to: 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, POST OFFICE BOX 151572, 

TAMPA, FLORIDA 33684, and THE HARDEE WORK CAMP, 

DC#T79719, 6901 STATE ROAD 62, GREEN, FLORIDA 

33834, on this day of t , 2013. 

LAUREN A. LEIKAM 
Assistant General Counsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 201 3-01501 (Department of Health v. LAMONTE 
GEORGE HAMBRICK, R.P.T.) are ONE THOUSAND ONE 
HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS AND NINETY-SIX CENTS 
($1,125.96). 

6) The costs for DOH case numbers 201 3-01501 (Department of Health 
v. LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, R.P.T.) are summarized in 
Exhibit 1 (Cost Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 2013-01501 
(Department of Health v. LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, R.P.T.) 
are detailed in Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense 
Report and receipts), which is attached to this document. 

EXHIBIT 
lof2 b 



8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 
keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this \3 day of 
by 

Name of Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of2 

•2013, 

Notary Signature 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201301501 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: HAMBRTCK, LAMONTE GEORGE 

[ 
***** Cost to Date ***** 

E____________________ [ 
Hours 

] 
Costs 

Complaint: 0.80 $43.92 

Illvestigation: 9.30 $589.57] 

Legal: 4.60 

Compliance: 0.10 

H [ 

Nub Total: 
] 

14.80 

jExpenses to I)ate: 

Prior Amount: 

ITotal Costs to Date: ] I 125.961 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IR.MOOTIMETRAK/CSDETL,.ASp 



D
iv

is
io

n 
of

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

M
Q

A
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
02

/1
2/

2p
13

 

10
 

$
1
0
6
.
3
5
 

$
1
1
6
.
9
9
 

0
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

$
1
0
6
.
3
5
 

$
3
1
.
9
1
 

0
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

**
*C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

T
IA

L
**

* 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 C

os
t 

by
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

13
01

50
1 

2
5
 

R
E
V
I
E
W
 C

A
SE

 F
IL

E
 

81
 

E
S
O
/
E
R
O
 

4
6
 

L
E
G
A
L
 R
E
S
E
A
R
C
H
 

28
 

PR
E

PA
R

E
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
E

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 
28

 
PR

E
PA

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

46
 

L
E

G
A

L
 R

E
SE

A
R

C
H

 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
05

/1
0/

20
 1
3
 

P
a
g
e
 
1
 
o
f
2
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ll 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

IC
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 U

N
IT

 
I 

H
C

27
 

0.
05

 
$3

2.
13

 
$1

.6
! 

02
/1

1/
20

13
 

13
7 

P
R
I
O
R
I
T
Y
D
O
W
N
G
R
A
D
E
S
I
U
P
G
R
A
D
E
S
 

H
C

27
 

0.
05

 
$3

2.
13

 
$1

.6
! 

02
/2

0/
20

13
 

12
5 

LI
C

E
N

S
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

0.
10

 
$3

.2
2 

jC
O

N
SU

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

U
N

IT
 

I 

R
A

23
 

0.
80

 
$5

4.
90

 
$4

3.
92

 
01

/3
11

20
13

 
14

4 
C

S
U

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

H
A

23
 

,6
0 

$5
4.

90
 

$3
2.

94
 

02
/0

4/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

1.
40

 
$7

6.
86

 

IIN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
' 

I 

T
1!

28
 

0.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

1.
99

 
01

/2
4/

20
13

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

12
8 

1.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
$
9
5
.
9
7
 

01
/2

4/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

T
I!2

8 
1.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$7
6.

78
 

01
/2

5/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

T
!!2

8 
0.

50
 

$6
3.

98
 

$3
1.

99
 

01
/2

5/
20

13
 

58
 

T
R

A
V

E
LT

IM
E

 
12

3 
1.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
3.

98
 

02
/2

0/
20

 1
3 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
12

3 
4.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$2
55

.9
2 

02
/2

2/
20

 1
3 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
. 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

8.
70

 
$5

56
.6

3 

I 

H
L
L
9
7
A
 

H
L
L
9
7
A
 

H
LL

97
A

 
I
L
L
9
7
A
 

H
L

L
97

A
 

H
L
L
9
7
A
 

0.
30

 
0.

20
 

1.
20

 

0.
10

 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
06

.3
5 

$
2
1
.
2
7
 

0
2
/
1
3
/
2
0
1
3
 

$
1
2
7
.
6
2
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
3
 

$
1
0
.
6
4
 

02
/2

5/
20

13
 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- 

F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 



O
W

iti
on

 a
t 

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L 

**
* 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

tv
tt 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

ia
t 

C
om

pt
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e;
 

05
/1

0/
20

 13
 

Pa
ge

 I
 

of
 I 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 

St
af

f 
C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

Fl
or

id
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
- 

F
O

R
 iN

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 —
 

ite
m

iz
ed

ex
pe

ns
e 



Rick Scoff 
Mission: 

Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of aD people in Fbdda thoUgh integrated John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 

HEALTH State Sumeon General & Se&etaiy 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the 

August 30, 2013 

VIA U. S. MAIL 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK 
HARDEE WORK CAMP, DC#T79719 
6901 STATE ROAD 62 
BOWLING GREEN, FLORIDA 33534 

Re: DOH vs. LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, R.P.T. 
DOH Case Number: 2013-01501 

Dear Mr. HAMBRICK: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material 
fact executed by you on April 2, 2013, concerning the above referenced case. This means that the 
fads alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction because, 
by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary case. Since you 
are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, you are not admitting the facts 
alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, you are agreeing not to contest these facts and to limit 
presentation to legal argument, if any, and to matters in mitigation or extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9, 2013, at the Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley 
Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408. Please be advised your case will be set at the 
convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the 
date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office. 

Since , 

LAUREN A. LEIKAM 
Assistant General Counsel 

LAL!bhh 

Florida Department at Health ldasHeaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Services Unit 

TWiTTERHealth FLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 lealth 
Express mad address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

VOUTUBE fidoh 
PHONE: 850/2454444 ' FAX 850/245-4683 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect promote & improve the health : John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision; To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 

August 30, 2013 

VIA U. S. MAIL 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK 
POST OFFICE BOX 151572 
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33684 

Re: 1 vs. LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, R.PT. 
DOH Case Number: 201 3-01501 

Dear Mr. HAMBRICK: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material 
fact executed by you on April 2, 2013, concerning the above referenced case. This means that the 
facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction because, 
by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary case. Since you 
are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, you are not admitting the facts 
alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, you are agreeing not to contest these facts and to limit 
presentation to legal argument, if any, and to matters in mitigation or extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9, 2013, at the Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley 
Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408. Please be advised your case will be set at the 
convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the 
date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office. 

Sinc ely, 

LAUREN A. LEIKAM 
Assistant General Counsel 

LAL/bhh 

Florida Department of Hea!th ldasHoaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel • ProsectThon Services Unit 

TWITrERIl ith FLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 -Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

FACEBOOK'FLDeparfrnentofrleaith 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row — Suite 105 

YOUTUBE' fldoh 
PHONE: 8501245.4444 • FAX .4683 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect promote & improve the health 

of afi in da through integrated John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
tY 

Slate Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naflon 

August 30, 2013 

VIA U. S. MAIL 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK 
HARDEE WORK CAMP, DC#T79719 
6901 STATE ROAD 62 
BOWLING GREEN, FLORIDA 33834 

Re: DOH vs. LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, R.P.T. 
DOH Case Number: 2013-01 501 

Dear Mr. HAMBRICK: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material 
fad executed by you on April 2, 2013, concerning the above referenced case. This means that the 
facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction because, 
by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary case. Since you 
are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, you are not admitting the fads 
alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, you are agreeing not to contest these facts and to limit 
presentation to legal argument, if any, and to matters in mitigation or extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9, 2013, at the Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley 
Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408. Please be advised your case will be set at the 
convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the 
date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office. 

Since ly, 

LAUREN A. LEIKAM 
Assistant General Counsel 

LAL/bhh 

Florida Departmont of Hoalth www.FlorldasHnith.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit 

TWITTERHealth FLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C.65 • Tallahassee, !L 32399-1701 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartinentolllealth 
Express mad address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

YOUTUBE fldoh 
PHONE: 8501245-4444• FAX 8501245-4683 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
State General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nauon 

August 30, 2013 

VIA U. S. MAIL 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK 
POST OFFICE BOX 151572 
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33684 

Re: DOH vs. LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, RET. 
DOH Case Number: 201 3-01 501 

Dear Mr. HAM BRICK: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material 
fact executed by you on April 2, 2013, concerning the above referenced case. This means that the 
facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction because, 
by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary case. Since you 
are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, you are not admitting the facts 
alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, you are agreeing not to contest these facts and to limit 
presentation to legal argument, if any, and to matters in mitigation or extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9, 2013, at the Wyndham Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley 
Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408. Please be advised your case will be set at the 
convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the 
date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office. 

Sinc ely, 

LAUREN A. LEIKAM 
Assistant General Counsel 

LAL/bhh 

Florida Department of Health .FiorldasHeaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecubon Services Unit 

TWITTERH Ui FLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin 0-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentoft-lealth 
Express marl address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

YOUTUBE fIdoh 
PHONE: 850/245.4444 • FAX 850/245-4683 



ELECTION OF RIGHTS 
Case Name: Lamonte George Hambrick, Rfl Case No. 2013-01501 

PLEASE SELECT ONLY 1 OF THE 3 OPTIONS 

An Explanation of Rights is attadied. If you do not understand these options, please consult with your attorney 

or contact the attorney for the Prosecution Services Unit at the address/phone number listed at the bottom of this form. 

OpTION 1. J7'I do not dispute the allegations of fact in the Administrative Complaint, but do wish to be 

accorded a hearing, pursuant to Section 120.57(2), florida Statutes, at which time I will be permitted to submit oral 

and/or written evidence in mitigation of the complaint to the Board. 

OPTION Z I do not dispute the allegations of fact contained in the Administrative Complaint and waive miy 

right to object or to be heard. I request that the Board enter a final order pursuant to Section 120.57, Florida Statutes. 

OPTION 3. I do dispute the allegations of fact contained in the Administrative Complaint and request this to 

be considered a petition for formal hearing, pursuant to Sections 120.569(2)(a) and 120.57(1), Florida Statutes, before 

an Administrative Law Judge appointed by the Division of Administrative Hearings. I specifically dispute the 
following paragraphs of the Administrative Complaint: 

In addition to the above selection. I also elect the : 
I accept the terms of the Settlement Agreement, have signed and am returning the Settlement 
Agreement or I am interested in settling this case. 

I do not wish to continue practicing and have signed and returned the Voluntary Relinquishment of 

licensure form. 

Regardless of which option I have selected, I understand that I will be given notice of time, date, 
when this matter is to be considered by the Board for Final Action. Mediation under Section 120.573, 
Statutes, is not available in this matter. 

(Please sign and complete all the information below. 

Respondent% sionnn.— 
Address: 

_______________ ________________________ 

w 
— — . . . . , I — - 0 

Lic. No. 

_______________________________________ 

Phone r: 

Fax No. 

_______________________________________ 

STATE OF A j / 1 J 
Before me personally appeared k whose identity is known to be by - (type of identification), and who under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature 

a above. Sworn to and ubscribed by Respondent before me 2_j. day of ,c 4 . 2013... 

MY CO EE 165266 
(Notary Public * 

EXPIRES: March 30 2016 
My Commission Expires: , BcndedThiuBudg2tNvlmyStMCe$ 

PLEASE MAIL AND/OR FAX COMPLETED FORM TO: Lauren A. Leikam, Assistant General Counsel, DOK, 
Prosecution Services Unit, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265. Telephone 
Number: (850) 245-4444, ext 8150; FAX (850) 245-4683- TDD 1-800-955-8771. 



U
S

A
 

c 

Justice 
—

 
F

O
R

E
V

E
R

 

4. 
fe.; 1 

t 

S
 

s 
* 

ey(w
s5 



OEO / CORRECTIONAL INSTITUT ON 

ON '( — FO8MNLINIi 

N 4 INMATE LEGAt MNL 

vOH 

in -rnlet/ cm iu 3cLJJeo( Ot-i 

4;iau g Is 
4r me,* 1 ilt(ZrIflq 

it t V) CL pr.Qved14S 

Cunyt+ a&sc Cs' iq on appcc( 
oF4pecJc A"/ 

h: ,¼a ektc/c tL- ws cc Thy' COJSt IAJTM4I\.QAfl O+lXLcr 
WwW. .Zdc&. W&S orcLtr 

•orckcuian on ntyc.&cc id Lca&c-hotnerj urMI ti- 
W1AcLQ._ 04 1 /60) 

CC 40 V b/un ? fl 
.PJCCJQ_ )tP nt J y&,r on 

do /d bt 4ttzppceciacAo(o I 
kwr &S 3QO4 pos 

• 



&
 

., 
I 

17719 
F

F
4dtQ

 orK
 

M
A

ILE
D

 F
R

O
M

 

H
A

R
D

E
E

 

ft33&
3q 

C
O

R
R

E
C

T
IO

N
A

L 
Z

IP
 33834 

1D
116257.8 

L 323?? 
7 



0/3 April 

Mr 

Iovnn 
yoa 

reje a Jav\ 

A 

-4 

Ni 
Ni 

) 

bec&u.se_I ttrn my 1 &nct '4- s 
o14 pea/c Th JJ fn+v cost nci * an 

-ttt fAcntiacy t.&rd4/ my 
n; 

l 

i 

C 



I 
i 

- 
r1r7 

C
 

U
.S.PO

ST
A

G
E

 
: c/C

 
i 

/ / 1 
( 

34102 
/kdec ut 

:- 

&
 

F
c 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

__________ 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the 

Certified Article Number 7 

August 7, 2013, 7196 9006 9111 6827 3189 

SENDERS RECORI) 7 

Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T 
Hardee Work Camp 
DC #: T79719 
6901 State Road 62 
Bowling Green, Florida 33834 

Re: Department of Health v. Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. 
Complaint Number: 201 3-01501 

Dear Mr. Hambrick: 

I received your letter dated July 1 • 201 3, requesting a postponement of your case before the 
Board of Pharmacy. I also understand Assistant General Counsel Casey Cowan responded to your 
request, and second request for a continuance was directed to the Board of Pharmacy. Again, the 
Board of Pharmacy does not allow telephonic appearance, and wilt not postpone this case indefinitely 
pending the outcome of your criminal appeal. However, the Board of Pharmacy has agreed to postpone 
your case until the October 2013 Board of Pharmacy meeting so that you may make arrangements to 
be present. You will receive a separate notice regarding the October 2013 Board of Pharmacy meeting. 
In the future, please direct any request for continuances directly to the Board of Pharmacy. As a 

prosecutor for the Department of Health, I do not have the authority to grant continuances, or change 
the time a hearing is scheduled to be heard. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. Please feel free to contact me at 850-245-4444 extension 
8150 if you have any questions. 

Assistant General Counsel 

Florida Department of Health www.FioridasHealth.com 

Office of the General Counsel• ProseojUon Services Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:F1..DepartmentotHealth 

PRONE: 850/2454444 'FAX 850/2454683 YOUThBE: fldoh 



71% 9008 9].11 862? 3189 

TO: 

Postponement Letter 
Blondell/Leikam 
Date Mailed 8/8/20 13 a 
2013-01501 ep 

-S — e ,*s — SENDER: 

REFERENCE: — — 

E 
Cs 

PS Form 3800, Jwiuary 2005 

________________ 

"1 
RETURN Postage r RECEIPT Certified Fee 
SERVICE 

Roturn Receipt Fee 

Restricted Deliver7 

__________________ 

Total Postage & Fees 

_______________— 

IJSPr POSTMARK OR DATE 

Receipt for 
Certified Mar 
No Insurance Coverage Pravided 
Do Not Use br MaB 



Rick Scott 
Mission: 

I Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

i . . - I of all people in Flodda through integrated 

i 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & cornrnunity efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

fl Certified Article Number 

7116 9008 9111 9326 6336 
July8, 2013 

SENDERS RECORD 
Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. 
Hardee Work Camp 
DC #: T79719 
6901 State Road 62 
Bowling Green, Florida 33834 

Re: Department of Health v. Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. 
Complaint Number: 2013-01501 

Dear Mr. Hambrick: 

I received the letter you sent to Ms. Leikam on July 1, 2013. Ms. Leikam is currently out of the 
office and I am responding on her behalf. In your letter, you indicated that you would like to attend the 
August Board of Pharmacy hearing via telephone and requested to postpone the case until a decision is 
made on your criminal appeal. Unfortunately, the Board of Pharmacy does not allow telephonic 
appearance and the Department is unwilling to postpone this case until a decision is made on your 
criminal appeal. If you would like to continue this case until the October Board of Pharmacy meeting, 
you will have to submit a request to the Board of Pharmacy. 

You indicated in your letter that you are interested in relinquishing your license. If you would 
like to voluntarily relinquish your license, please sign and notarize the Voluntary Relinquishment of 
License included with this letter. If we do not receive the signed voluntary relinquishment form by 
August 5, 2013, your case will proceed to the Board of Pharmacy meeting as an informal hearing. 

If you any questions, please contact me at the address below or via telephone at (850) 245-4444, 
extension 8103. Ms. Leikam is expected to return to the office on July 15, 2013, and she can be reached 
at extension 8150. 

Sincerely, 

Casey L. Cowan 
Assistant General Counsel 

Florida Department of Health .FioridasHeaith.com 

Office of the General Counsel • Proseajtion Services Unit TWFfltR:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way! Bin -Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOKFLDeparthientofHealth 

PHONE: FAX 850/245-4683 VOUTiJBE: Ildoh 



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

0 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, R.P.T 

Respondent. 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing 

is to avoid further administrative action 

Respondent understands that acceptance 

(hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Reli 

as disciplinary action against Respondent's 

456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. As with 

this Voluntary Relinquishment 

with respect to this case. 

by the Board of Pharmacy 

nquishment shall be construed 

license pursuant to Section 

any disciplinary action, this 

Petitioner, 

Case 2013=01501 

I 

VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent, LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBR.ICK, license number 8527, 

hereby voluntarily relinquishes Respondent's license as a registered 

pharmacy technician in the State of Florida and states as follows: 

relinquishment will be reported to the National Practitioner's Data Bank. 

Licensing authorities in other states may impose discipline in their jurisdiction 

based on discipline taken in Florida. 



2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a registered 

pharmacy technician in the State of Florida. 

3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing pharmacy 

immediately upon executing this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent 

further agrees to refrain from the practice of pharmacy until such time as this 

Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to the Board and the Board issues a 

written Final Order in this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by 

the Board in a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the 

consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statutory privilege of 

confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and waives a 

determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the 

Department appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida 

Statutes, regarding the complaint, the investigative report of the Department 

of Health, and all other information obtained pursuant to the Department's 

investigation in this case. By signing this waiver, Respondent understands 

2 
DOH v. Lamonte G. Hambrick, RPT 
Case No. 2013-01501 



that the record and complaint become public record and remain public record 

and that information is immediately accessible to the public. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, 

Respondent agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review, or to otherwise 

challenge or contest the validity of this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the 

Final Order of the Board incorporating this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's 

acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own 

attorney's fees and costs related to the prosecution or defense of this case. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

investigative file materials concerning Respondent in connection with the 

Board's consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees 

that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and other related 

materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or any of its 

members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted 

by the Board. 

3 
DOH v, Lamonte G. Harnbrick, Rfl 
Case No. 2013-01501 



SIGNED this 

____ 

day of 

______________, 

2013. 

LAMONTE GEORGE HAF4BRICK, 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF 

Before me personally appeared whose 
identity is known to be by (type of 
identification), and who under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature 
appears above. Sworn to and subscribed by Respondent before me this 

day of 

________________, 

2013. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

4 
DCH V. Larnonte (5. Hambrick, RPT 
Case No. 2013-01501 



7196 9008 1111 9326 6336 

TO: 

SENDER: 

REFERENCE: 

PS Form 3800, January 2005 

RETURN Postage 
RECEIPT certified Fee 
SERVICE 

Return Receipt Fee 

lricled Delivery 

TotaJ Postage & Fees 

usps. 
Receipt for 

Certified IE 
No Inourance Coverage Provided 
Do Not Use for l 

— 

'a 
•1 — 
Vt — — 
Vt 0 

© 

(64 a 

r 
C 

5 

€5 
C 9 
eb 

€5 

PS Form . Janumy 2005 Domestic Return Receipt 

VR-Letter lLeikam 
Date Mailed 7/8/20 13 

2013-01501 

* * 

t t 
C 

5. 
C 
3 

POSTMARK OR DATE 

:vtiolrflatioii 

George EY.T. 
Hardee 
DC: T79719 

Road 62 
fowling Green, Fiocida 33g34 

C44 
r 



MEMORANDUM OF FINDING OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 
RE: DON v. Lamonte G. Hambrick, R.P.TC 

DON Case Number 2013-01501 

MEMBERS: Michele Weizer, PharmD, and Gavin W. Meshad 

DATE OF PCP: March 08, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-1(LL) ...........M.........•• ..t..... ......... ....tIsN..u.u......u •t 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Raving reviewed 
the complete investigative report, recommendations of the Department, and any 

information submitted by the Subject, and being otherwise fully advised in the 
premises, the panel finds that: 

X Probable.cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Count I: Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012) 
Count II: Section 456.072(1)(xx), Florida Statutes (2012) 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 
1 

____ 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

____ 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

Other I 
Ch6ir, Probable CaQse anel Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



Rick Scoft 
Governor 

To protect promote & improve the health 

______________ 

of all people In Florida through integrated 
John H Annstrong, , FACS state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH Stata Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision; To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

February 21, 2013 Certified Article Number 

7196 9008 II 5772 5923 

SENDERS ): 
Dear Mr. Hambrick: 

RE: Department of Health vs. Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. 
RE: Case Number: 2013-01501 

Enclosed please find an Order of Emergency Suspension of License filed February 20, 2013, 
against your license to practice as a registered pharmacy technician in the State of Florida. 
You should immediately cease the practice as a registered pharmacy technician according 
to the enclosed Order of Emergency Suspension of License. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact Lauren Leikam, Assistant 
General Counsel at (850) 245 4444. 

Sincerely, 

Melba L. 

Regulatory II 
Prosecution Services Unit 

www.FlorjdasHealth.com 
I1TER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK FLDeparthientof Health 
VOUTUBE: fldoh 

la 
Enclosure 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General CounselS Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin C-65 . Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
PRONE: 8501245-4444 FAX 850!245-466X 

Lamonte George Hambrick, RPT 
P.O. Box 151572 
Tampa, FL 33684 



** Transmit Conf..Report ,Icsc 

P.1 Feb 212013 11:04am 

Fax/Phone Number Mode Start Time Page Result Note 

99216841 Normal 21:11:O3am 0'29" 1 * 0 K 

- ick Scott ., 
To S i lth 

__________ 

Joim N. , MC, FACfl 

HEALTH Stala Geuetj & Secretary 

Vioiorr To be Pt State i,r the Naljtn 

February 21, 2013 

The Honorable Robert S. Cohen 
Chief Administrative Law Judge 
Division of Administrative Hearings 
1230 Apalachee Parkway 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

RE: Department of Health vs. Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. 
RE: Case Number: 2013-01501 

Dear Judge Cohen: 

This letter is to advise you that the Department has issued an Emergency Suspension 
Order concerning the license of Iamonte George Hambrick to practice as a registered 
pharmacy technician in the State of Florida. An Administrative Complaint has not been 
issued in the above case. Therefore, this is not a request for a formal hearing. 

This letter is sent to advise you of the action taken by the Department and to advise you of 
the possibility that the respondent may request an expedited hearing. The Department 
shall keep you advised of any developments. If you need additional information, please 
contact Lauren Leikam, Assistant General Counsel at (850) 245 4444. 

Sincerely, 

Meib 1. Apellanlz 
Regulatory Speciah I 
Prosecution Services Unit 

/mJa 

florida Department of Health lth.co,n 
of Pie Geonral Counsel • Prou.ojtjon Sarvicee P eathyFLA 

4062 Bald Qypaus li C45 'Tallahassee, Pt 01 lth 
PhONE: 2454444 • 85w245-46ex Idob 



Rick Scoff 
Mission: Governor 
To protect promote & improve the health 

______________ 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 

&LTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naflon 

February 21, 2013 

The Honorable Robert S. Cohen 
Chief Administrative Law Judge 
Division of Administrative Hearings 
1230 Apalachee Parkway 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

RE: Department of Health vs. Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. 
RE: Case Number: 2013-01501 

Dear Judge Cohen: 

This letter is to advise you that the Department has issued an Emergency Suspension 
Order concerning the license of Lamonte George Hambrick to practice as a registered 
pharmacy technician in the State of Florida. An Administrative Complaint has not been 
issued in the above case. Therefore, this is not a request for a formal hearing. 

This letter is sent to advise you of the action taken by the Department and to advise you of 
the possibility that the respondent may request an expedited hearing. The Department 
shall keep you advised of any developments. If you need additional information, please 
contact Lauren Leikam, Assistant General Counsel at (850) 245 . 

Sincerely, 

Regulatory Specialis II 
Prosecution Services Unit 

la 

Florida Department of Health m 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecuflon Services Unit TWIUER:HealthyFt.A 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDeparfrnentoHealth 

PHONE:850/245-4444- FAX 8501245-466X YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Hand Service ESO 13-01501/Hambrick Page 1 of 1 

Apellaniz, Melba 

From: Apellaniz, Melba 

Sent: Wednesday, February 20, 2013 3:06 PM 

To: DL MQA mv Serv Priority Mail Area6 (TI) Tampa 

Subject: Hand Service ESO 13-01501/Hambrick 

Attachments: Supp.Req.13-01501 .Hambrick.2.20.1 3.doc; lnv.Reportl3-O1 501.Hambrick.2.20.13.pdf; DOH 13- 
0287 ESO 201301501-1.PDF 

Good Afternoon, 

Attached please find a request to hand service ESO for case 2013-01501, Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. 

<<...>> >> <<...>> 

Thanks, 

AleII'a'L. RSII 
Assistant to: Daniel Hemandez, DGC 
Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4444 ext. 8223 
Mission: To protect, promote, and improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, county, & community efforts. 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Values: ICARE 

I innovation: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely. 
C collaboration: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems. 
A accountability: We perform with integrity & respect. 
R responsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & engaging our partners. 
E excellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & continuous performance improvement. 
Purpose: To protect the public through health care Ilcensure, enforcement and information, 

Focus: To be the nations leader in quality health care regulation. 

Please note: 
Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from state officials regarding state business are public records available 
to the public and media upon request. Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail. 

2/20/2013 



Final Order Na 

FEB 20 2013 
TE F FLORIDA DepartmeatofHeaflh 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH By:_____________ 
Dep Agency Clerk 

In Re: Emergency Suspension of the License of 
Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. 
License No.: RPT 8527 
Case No.: 2013-01501 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF LICENSE 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS, State Surgeon General and Secretary 

of Health, ORDERS the emergency suspension of the license of Lamonte 

George Hambrick, R.P.T., to practice as a registered pharmacy technician 

in the State of Florida. Mr. Hambrick holds license number RPT 8527. His 

address of record is P.O. Box 151572, Tampa, Florida 33684. The following 

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law support the emergency suspension 

of Mr. Hambrick's license to practice as a registered pharmacy technidan. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health (Department) is the state agency 

charged with regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Chapters 20, 

456, and 465, Florida Statutes (2012). Section 456.074(1), Florida Statutes 

(2012), authorizes the Department to summarily suspend Mr. Hambrick's 

license to practice as a registered pharmacy technidan. 



In : Ern&gency of the Ucerise of 
Lamonte George Hambiiciç R.PJ. 
Uceise No.: RPT 8527 
Case No.; 2013-01501 

2. At all times material to this Order, Mr. -lambrick was licensed 

to practice as a registered pharmacy technician in the State of Florida 

pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes (2012). 

3. On or about May 15, 2012, the lsborough County Sheriff's 

Office arrested Mr. Hambrick for trafficking in illegal drugs twenty-eight 

(28) grams to twenty (20) kilograms in violation of Section 

893.135(1)(c)1.c., Florida Statutes (2012), and grand theft in violation of 

Section 812.014(2)(c)2., Florida Statutes (2012). 

4. On or about October 31, 2012, in the Circuit Court of the 

Thirteenth Judicial Circuit in and for lsborough County, Florida, in case 

number 12-CF-007394, Mr. Hambrick entered a plea of guilty to one (1) 

count of trafficking in illegal drugs twenty-eight (28) grams to twenty (20) 

kilograms, a first degree felony, in violation of Section 893.135(1)(c)1.c., 

Florida Statutes (2012); and one (1) count of grand theft, a third degree 

felony, in violation of Section 812.014(2)(c)2., Florida Statutes (2012). 

5. The Department did not learn of the above referenced pleas 

until on or about January 23, 2013. 

6. Section 456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that the 

Department shall issue an emergency order suspending the license of any 

2 



In Re: Emergency Suspeislon of the License of 
Lamonte George Hambridç R.Pt 
License No.: RPT 8527 
Case No.: 2013-01501 

person licensed under Chapter 465, Florida Statutes (2012), who pleads 

guilty to a felony under Chapter 893, Florida Statutes, regardless of 

adjudication. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General and 

Secretary of Health concludes as follows: 

1. The Department has jurisdiction pursuant to Sections 20.43 and 

456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012), and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes 

(2012). 

2. The Department is mandated to summarily suspend Mr. 

Hambrick's license to practice as a registered pharmacy technician in 

accordance with Section 456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2012). 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Section 456.074(1), Florida 

Statutes (2012), it is ORDERED THAT: 

1. The license of Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T., license 

number RPT 8527, is immediately suspended. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal suspension or discipline of the 

license of Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T., to practice as a registered 

3 



In Re: Emerçency or the Licerse of 
Lamonte George Hanibridç ,P.T. 
License No.: RPT 8527 

No.: 2013-01501 

pharmacy technician will be promptly instituted and upon in 

compliance with Section 120569, Florida Statutes (2012). 

DONE and ORDERED this 

____________ 

day of February, 2013. 

Sta Surgeon General an Secretary of Health 

PREPARED BY: 
Lauren A. Leikam 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 0088700 
(850)245-4640 Telephone 
(850)245-4683 Facsimile 

4 



In Re: Emergency of the License of 
Lanionte George Harnbrick, R.P.t 
License No.: RPT 8527 
case No.: 1 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Section 120.68, Florida Statutes, this Order is judiciafly 

reviewable. Review proceedings are governed by the Rorida Rules of 

Appellate Procedure. Proceedings are commenced by filing a Petition for 

Review, in accordance with lorida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.100, with 

the District Court of Appeal, accompanied by a filing fee prescribed by 

a copy of the petition with the Agency Clerk of the Department within 

30 days of the date this Order is filed. 

S 



Mission: ick Scott 

To protect, promote & improve the health - Governor 

olall people in Florida through integrated H John H. Annsfrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Petitioner 
vs 

Case No. 2013-01501 
LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, RPT 

Respondent 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of 
Florida. 

2) That on February 20, 2013 through February 22, 2013, Affiant made a diligent effort to locate 
Respondent, to serve 

_____ 

Administrative Complaint and related papers; — Order compelling 
examination(s); Subpoena(s); 

_______Final 

order; 

__________Notice 

to cease and desist; X 
ESO/ERO and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

LAffiant made personal service on Respondent, or on some person at Respondents usual place of 
abode over the age of 15 residing there, on (date) February 22. 2013 LAMONTE GEORGE 
HAMBRICK. RPT. was hand served Order of Emergency Suspension of License, related papers 
and Voluntary Relinquishment of License at Hardee Work Camp correctional facility located at 
6901 State Road 62; Green. Florida. Identification was verified by facility correctional . 
__Affiant was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for 
Respon nt shown in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) Division of Drivers Licenses; and 

State Of Florida 
County Of Hilisborough 

Before me, personally appeared Terrence Dawkins whose identity is known to me by personal 
knowledge (type of identification) and who, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

me this nd 
day of February 2013. 

Notary Public-State of Florida My Commission Expires 

Type or Print Name 

NV FORM 321 Created 9/05 



TO: 

900& 91],1 5772 5923 

Lamonte G. Hambrtk, RPT 
P.O. Box 151572 
Tampa, FL 33684 

SENDER: 

REFERENCE: 

ESO 
2013-0150 1 

US Postal 0 
Receipt for 

Certified Mar 
No Insurance Coverage Provided 
Do Not Use for International Mail 

4. Restricted ? (Extra Fee) 
1. 

P.O. Box 151572 
2013 -0 150 1 

Leikam 

j H l 
Domestic Return Receipt 

PS Form . Janunru 2005 

RETURN 
RECEIPT 
SERVICE 

Postage 

Certified Fee 

Retum Receipt Fee 

Restricted Delivery 

Total Postage & Fees 

POSTMARK OR DATE 

2/2 1/20 13 

3. Service Type CER11PIED MAIL" 

Lamonte G. Hambrick, RPT 

Tampa, FL 33684 

PS Form 3811, January 2005 

Hambrick 
2/21/2013 



Apellaniz, Melba 

From: les@dos.state.fl.us 
Sent: Thursday, February 21, 2013 11:16AM 
To: Apellaniz, Melba 
Subject: Submit Notice in FAR 

You have successfully submitted a notice for publication in the Florida Administrative 
Register on 2/21/2013 11:15:37 AN. 

Department: Department of Health 
Organization: Board of Pharmacy 
Notice type: Miscellaneous 
Issue: 39/37 

Once this notice is published you will be able to view it by clicking the following link: 
http: //www.FLRules.org/gateway/ViewNotice.asp?id=12675977 

You may contact the Florida Administrative Register office at (850)245—6270 for additional 
information. 

Florida is headed in the right l View Florida's Jobs Growth Chart: 
http: / /www. flgov. com/photoview/j obcreationchart. jpg 
The Department of State is leading the commemoration of 's 500th anniversary in 
2013. For more information, please go to www.fla500.com. 
The Department of State is committed to excellence. Please take our Customer Satisfaction 
Survey: http: //survey.dos.state. fl.us/index.aspx?email=fl.rules@dos.myflorida.com 

1 



Rick Scott 
-Mission: 

Governor 
To promote & improve the health - 

of John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

HEALTH State Sumeon General & Secretary 

Vision: lobe the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Florida Administrative Weekly, Liz Cloud 

FROM: Melba L. Apellaniz, Regulatory Specialist II 

RE: Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. License # RPT 8527 
CASE NO(S): 2013-01501 

DATE: February 21, 2013 

Attached please find notice of the issuance of an Emergency Suspension Order for notice in the next issue of the 
Florida Administrative Weekly. 

On February 20, 2013, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the 
license of Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T. License # RPT 8527. This Emergency Suspension Order was 
predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety 
and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6) Florida Statutes (2011). The State Surgeon General 
determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method 
available to adequately protect the public. 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit IWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee. FL 32399-I 701 . FACEBOOK:FLDeparbnentofilealth 
PHONE:550/245-4444' YOUIUBE: I]doh 



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Offi ce: Date of Complaint: Case Number: 
CONSUMER SERVICES 01/30/2013 RPT 2013-01 501 

Subject: 
LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICK, RPT 
PC BOX 151572 
Tampa, FL 33684 
239-293-0650 

Source: 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh 
Bureau of Operations 

Prefix: License # : Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RPT 8527 Registered Pharmacy 02/04/2013 

Pharmacy 
Technician 

Period of Investigation: 
01/31/2013 through 02/04/2013 

Type of Report: 
FINAL 

Alleged Violation: SS. 456.0635(3)(a), 456.072(1 )(c)(k)(x)(dd) and 465.016(1 )(e)(f)(r), F.S.; Conviction as 
defined in 456.0635; Convicted of a crime related to the practice; Failure to perform statutory/legal obligation; 
Violate statute/rule : This investigation is predicated on the receipt of an internally generated complaint with an attached 
spreadsheet stating a report from CCIS indicating HAMBRICK has 893 convictions which have not been 
reported/addressed. Court documents received from the Hilisborough County Clerk of Court revealed 
HAMBRICK entered a guilty plea and was adjudicated guilty on charges of Trafficking in Illegal Drugs 28 gram 
to 30 Kil (S. 893.135(1)(c)(1)(c), F.S.) and Grand Theft Third Degree $5,000-$10,000 (S. 812.014(2)(c)2., F.S. 
on 10/31/2012. (EXHIBIT #1) 

HAMBRICK was notified of this complaint by certified letter, dated 01/31/2013. The notification was sent to the 
mailing address of record. Forwarded with this letter were copies of the Case Summary and the initiating 
documents. (EXHIBIT #2) 

DOH licensure information viewed on 02/04/2013 reflects HAMBRICK is duly licensed to practice as a 
Registered Pharmacy Technician in the State of Florida with a Delinquent, Active Status. 

No patient involvement, thus patient notification not required 

HAMBRICK does not appear to be represented by counsel in this matter as of the date of this report. 

HAMBRICK has not responded to notification of this complaint as of the date of this report. (EXHIBIT ) 
Related Case: 

Investigator/Date: 

lrtiQ& 
Anita M. Hill (HA23) 02/04/2013 Nicole Singleton, Manager 

Distribution: Prosecution Services Unit/Consumer Services Unit Page 1 



DON INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER RPT 2013-01501 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER PAGE 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

II. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Records 3 

Interviews/Statements: 
Interview/Statement of the FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 3 
Interview/Statement of LAMONTE GEORGE HAMBRICKI RPT 3 

III. EXHIBITS 

1) Uniform Complaint Form & Initiating Documents 4-19 

2) 's Notification 20-21 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER RPT 2013-01 501 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH — Source 

Address of Record: Bureau of Operations 

On 01/23/2013, Investigator Hill received an internally generated complaint with an attached 
spreadsheet stating a report from CCIS indicating HAMBRICK has 893 convictions which have not 
been reported/addressed. Court documents received from the Hilisborough County Clerk of Court 
revealed HAMBRICK entered a guilty plea and was adjudicated guilty on charges of Trafficking in 
Illegal Drugs 28 gram to 30 Kil (S. 893.1 35(1)(c)(1)(c), F.S.) and Grand Theft Third Degree $5,000- 
$10,000 (S. 812.014(2)(c)2., ,S. on 10/31/2012. (EXHIBIT#1) 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF LAMONTE GEORGE . RPT - Subject 

Address of Record: P0 BOX 151572 
Tampa, FL 33684 
239-293-0650 

HAMBRICK has not responded to notification of this complaint as of the date of this report. 

Investigator's Note: Any response received from HAMBRICK will be forwarded to this file upon 
receipt. 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


FLORiDA DEPARTMENT opiTh\ •1 

Rick Scott WAJJF .Fohn H. Armstrong, R FACS 

January 31, 2013 

IAL 
Lamonte George Hambrick, RPT 
Post Office Box 151572 

Tampa, FL 33684 

Complaint #: 201301501 

Dear Mr. Hambrick: 

The Consumer Services Unit has received the enclosed complaint against you. We reviewed the complaint or report and determined that the Pharmacy Practice Act may have been violated. 
Therefore, we have opened an investigation into this matter. Please submit a written response 
to this complaint within 20 days of receipt of this letter. 

You may make a written request for a copy of the investigative file. This complaint and all 
investigative information will remain confidential until 10 days after the probable cause panel 
has determined that a violation has occurred or you give up the right to confidentiality. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect, promote & improve the health of all 
people in Florida through integrated state, county, & community efforts. If you have any 
questions, please call the Consumer Services Unit at (850) 245-4339. In addition, if you have 
any concerns or suggestions about our complaint process, please fill out our Customer 
Concerns or Suggestions form at . 

Sincerely, 

Anita M. Hill 
Government Analyst I 

AMH/tb 
Enclosure 
CERTIFIED MAlL: 7011 2970 0003 6945 2037 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance HEPOK I 

______________ 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bi.n C-75 Tallahassee, FL 32399-3275 
7 Telephone Number (850)245-4339' Fax (850)488-0796. lorithishealth.com I t 

_______________ 

PAG 



'- 
m 
C 

U.S. Postal ServiceTM 
CERTIFIED MAILTM RECEIPT 
(Domestic Mail Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided) 

For delivery information visit our website.at 
i 

't,> U U U 

COMPLETE THIS SECTION ON DELIVERY 

D. Is delivety dIfferent from Item 1? 0 Yes 
if YES, enter dekvety address below: C No 

3. Ser4eType 
Mall C Express Mail 

C Registered C Return Receipt for Merchandise 
Insured Mail C C.0.D. 

4. RestrIcted Delivery? (Extra Fee) 

Postmark 
Here 

Postage $ 

ltled Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 
(Endorsement 

Restricted Delivery Fee 
(Endorsement Required) 

iPostet amonte George Hambrick, RPT 
Office Box 151572 

FL 33684 201301501 ha 23 
CIty, Zi 1 
P5 Form3800. See Reverse cr 

SENDER: COMPLETE THIS SECTION 

• Complete Items 1, 2, and 3. Also complete 
Item 4 if Restricted Delivery is desired. • Pflnt your name and address on the reverse 
so that we can return the card to you. • Attach this card to the back of the mailpiece, 
or on the front if space permits. 

1. kticleAddressedtc: 

iNFIDENTIAL 
iionte George Hambrick, RPT 

.)st Office Box 151572 
;mpa, FL 33664 
01301501 ha23 

2. ArtIcle Number 
(Transfer from taMes Iabeo 

PS Form 3811, February 2004 

CERTIFIED/RESTRICTED DELIVERY 
ADORESSER ONLY 

7011 2970 B 6945 2037 
Domestic Return Receipt -M.r 540 

REP0Rr_______ 
____ 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flodda Through integrated 

state, county & community efforts 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Joseph Thomas Brown 
6826 Hatteras Drive 
Lake Worth, FL 33467 

RE: Application for Licensure by Examination 

Dear Mr. Brown: 

September 18, 2013 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, October 9, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. The meeting begins at 
1:00p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.floridaspharmacy.gov/meeting-inforrnation/upcoming-meetings/. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

James Cumbie 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 8501245-4292 • FAX 8501413-6982 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
ITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentotHealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

HALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(page 1 of 39> 

295.00 
Type; F 

DH-MQA 101.09109 
Rule 64B16-26.203, F.A.C. 

JUN 252013 

Licensin9 and 
Audi2ing Services 

riunud 
HEALTh 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

P.O. Box 6:320 • Tallahassee. FL 32314-6320 

Phone: (850) 245-4292 

07/01/2013 
ID: 15724 

BT: 3000075 

VL: 913000269 

ITEM _PHARMACIST EXAMINATION APPLICATION 

FOR U.S. AND PUERTO RICO GRADUATES 
FEE: $295.00 

Intern Ucense number: 

Page 2 of 9 



.8;:Aro:you plannir :'thtransfer your 
score to Florida? If yes, please indicate 

date of transf.r. .. 

9. Did.yóu transfer 
within the past three (3) years? 

. ... 

Yes Date of transfer: 
No V Yes Date of exam: i NoJz: 

willing to provide health søryices in special neédsshelters 
módlóala stãnà teams during times of órnergency.or major ? 
Yes If No 

11. Have you evóráppfiedtó:.take the Floilda Pharmacist Examination? If yè% . 
Yes_______ No_______ Date 

12 List all experience earned as an Intern If you have been a registered pharmacist for at least .(1} year, list only your pharmacist experience If you graduated after January 1, 2001 a Pharm D Degree, it Isnot necessary to completethis section Note you must submit one 11) or Work Exnerlence Form - Form B (Item #41 for each emniover listed below Use a separate sheet if 

Dates 

-_ 
Employer Location 

- 

Intern or pharmacy 
Total hours experience 

. 

13. state(s). in which you have:hëld hold a licejiSe. Note: you submit one 1) Llcensure Venficatkni Form (Item #5) for each state below Use a separate shee6 
. 

Stte License number issued 

— please indicate:if.you require speciautesting 
a cheability or if you have a religious conflict with the scheduled examination date if 

for Candidates Soeclal Testina Accommodations in Accordance with the 
Americans with Act." form -MQA 4000 6108. which may be downloaded' from the 

::I,ftp:lI maalexàipeàtest.htrn or 
Services by Dhone at (850) 245-4252 for detailed information and an All requests in writing documents. . . 

. 

Yes______ No V 
15. convlcted.of, or ente pieaof guilty, flOló:Gontendere, or 

othir than a minor traffic óffensè? . .: . 

Yes 

DH-MQA 101, 09109 Page 3 of 9 
Rule 1 F.A.C. 

No 

(You must include all misdemeanors end felonies, even if adjutiication was withheld by the coust so thai would not have a record of conviction. Dulving under the Influence or driving white impaired ,s a minor tratltc offense for The purposes of this question.) 



,20. Has disciplinary action ever beefl taken against .pharmaclst or any otherproféssloflallicensé 
:Inthis state or any other state? ' 

Yes " 
21 Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
jurisdiction when disciplinary action was .: 

. '.:.:.: 

Yes______ No_______ 
22..Are you. presently' being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending again't ? 
Yes No 

Have you boen convicted of, or entered a plea of. guilty or nolo::àoflténdere 
a felony under Chapter 409, F S (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 

817, F S (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F S (relating to drug abuse prevention and 
cofltrol) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If no, 

Yes_______ No_______ 
to 23,:for ef onies ofthe fiNt: 0* ide 1M It: been more than 15 fràr the: 

sefltenceahd óompEetldfl any ? 
Yes No 

24a if "yes" to 23,'for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the.date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not.apply to:.: 

'felonfes of the third degree under Section 893.13(6) a), . •.. 

Yes______ No 

to .23. forthe felonies of the lrd.degree.uñder has 
it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 

. 

. 
. :. .• ••. 

Yes No V 
24c If "yes" to 23, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted In the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). . S 

Yes______ No______ 
25. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contenders to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. as. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid ? 
Yes No\/ 
25a. if "yes" to 25, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 
and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes No 

28 Have you ever been terminated for cause the Flonda Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
Statutes?I (If no, do taflawer 27.) 

• . 
.5 

: . . 

.MQAIOI,09109 Page5of9 
Rule 64B16-26.203, F.A.C. 



Yes_____ No______ 
have been tenukiated bUt reinstated, have. you been. in good standingwith the florida. 

for the most recent five years? 

Yes_______ No_______ 

26 Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 28a and 28b) 

Yes No 
28a Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 
for the; most recent five years? 

5 

: 

: 

Yes No 

Did atleast2O years prior date of thlsapphcafion? 
: 

Yes______ No______ 
29 Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 

Entities? . 

Yes_______ No (If yes, provide supporting documentation) 

30. If "yes" to any of the questions 23 through 29 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled in 
an educational or training program In the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes'/ No___ 
must.bó answered oryoUrappIiCahOfl wflI be returned fgrcomptétion. :. 

you answer "yes" to any questions in 16-29, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit 
a certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of 1 supporting documents or 

:. : : 
: : 

:: 
: 

Section 456.013(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any 
material change in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place between the initial 

filing of the application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the 

department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements 
shall the basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any 
investigations they deem appropriate and to secure any additional Information concerning 'ne. 1 further authorize 

them to furnish any information they may have or have In the future concerning me to any person, corporation, 

institution, association, board or any municipal, county, state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I 

understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a license may be revoked or 
false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other thing, in 

connecjiofi)Nlth a license or pemiit, as set forth in section 456.01 , F.S. 

Date 

( NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

DH-MQA 101, 09109 Page 6 of 9 
Rule 84B16-26.203, FAG. 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


TOTAL HOURS: 

Please accept a total of 1837 hours toward fulfillment of this candidate's internship hours. 

, ii 
B.S. Pharm., M.S. 

Asst. Professor in Pharmacy Practice 
Director of Experiential 

SOUTHEASTERN COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 
UNIVERSITY 
OF THE HEALTH SCIENCES 

of Osteopathk Meddne 
Colle8e of Optometry 

The Florida Board of Pharmacy 
130 N. Monroe 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

Dear Board: 

June 6, 1991 

This letter is written to certify that Joseph T. Brown, Internship Certificate numbered 7219, has 
completed the following college-supervised rotations and internship (at Eckerd drugs) in fulfillment 
of the Florida Internship requirements. 

Internship: 
Hospital Ext.: 
Community Ext.: 

Drug Infomiation: 
Geriatric: 
Internal Medicine: 
Elective A: 

B: 
Elective C: 
Elective D: 

550 
320 
320 
160 
160 
lri7 
160 
0 
0 
0 
0 

1837 

cc: P. Magaliari 

1750 N.E. 168th St Miami Beach, FL (305)949-4000 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Joseph Thomas Brown 
7770 Springfield Lake Dr., Lake Worth. FL 33467 

Home: (561) .6408 - Deli: (561) 800-6408 : joetbrown@bellsouth.net 

Professional Summary 
Pharmacist with over twenty years of retail experience in the state 
of Florida. Dedicated to patient knowledge and understanding of medication lherapy. Established positive 
relationships with medical professionals, healthcare organizations, insurance representatives, wholesalers and 
patients. 

Professional Experience 

Pharmacy Manager/owner 
January 2001 to May 2011 
express RX - Greenacres, FL 
Created a new pharmacy, with a module based on a greater emphasis on pharmacist to patient education and 
satisfaction with the pharmacy profession. Created a web based live weekly internet program describing the 
benefits of using a small drugstore compared to the chains. Worked along side AM talk show host Dick Farrell in 
West Palm Beach discussing new medications on the market, taking phone calls from listeners, and also 
promoting independent pharmacies. Was a preceptor and adviser for Keiser College in Lake Worth, teaching 
pharmacy technician students the retail side of their profession. I also was a preceptor for Palm Beach Atlantic 
College of pharmacy and worked with many of their students. 
My pharmacy was a runner up for Small Business of the Year in 2004 by Northwood University in West Palm 
Beach, 
I also was one of the first to implement the Flavorx system in 2001 for flavoring liquid medication for kids, and the 
compounding of certain canine anti seizure medications. I partnered with Transaction Data to develop a patient 
friendly prescription processing system. 
I worked with Ameriscource Bergen's Good Neighbor Pharmacy filming thirty second television spots on the local 
CBS station for breast cancer awareness, the promotion of GNP and its affiliates, and the dangers of drug 
interactions Pharmacy of the year by Good Neighbor Pharmacy in 2009. 
Within two years my pharmacy tripled in sales and prescription volume. 

Pharmacy Manager 
September 1991 to January 1999 
Eckerd Drug - Greenacres, FL 
Communicated directly with doctors via telephone, fax, and email. Responsible for pharmacist and employee 
schedules, payroll, and inventory at a twenty-four hour pharmacy. Worked directly with district supervisors in 
coordinating staff meetings, speaking engagements and customer relations. Developed and implemented the 
compounding and distribution of progesterone suppositories with my night pharmacist. Was placed in the District 
Manager training program and frequently traveled with supervisors to other stores in an effort to increase 
productivity and customer satisfaction. Won a customer service award with the company. 

Bachelor of Science: Pharmacy, 1991 
Nova Southeastern University College of Pharmacy - Davie, FL, USA 

Associate of Science: Pre-pharinacy, 1988 
Miami-Dade College - Miami, FL, USA 

Community Service 
Yearly health fairs, Express RX, 2001-201 1 

Answered phone questions about drug interactions, CBS IV., 2006-20 09 
Provided flu vaccinations, 2006-2011 
Adjunct teacher, Keiser College, 2003-2011 
Adviser for the Fountains community health fair organizations, Lake Worth 2005-2011 
Lake Worth Chamber of Commerce, 2001-2011 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

In Re: Emergency Suspension of the License of 

JOSEPH BROWN, RPH 

License No.: PS 26675 
Case Nos.: 2011-08871 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF UCENSE 

The State Surgeon General, ORDERS the emergency suspension 

of the license of Joseph Brown, RPH, to practice as a pharmadst in the 

State of Florida. Mr. Brown holds license number PS 26675. His 

address of record is 6826 Hatteras Drive, Lake Worth, Florida 33467. 

The following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law support the 

emergency suspension of Mr. Brown's License to practice as a 

pharmacist. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health (Department) is the state 

agency tharged with regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to 

Chapters 20, 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. Section 456.073(8), 

Florida Statutes (2010), authorizes the State Surgeon General to 

summarily suspend Mr. Brown's license to practice as a pharmacist in 

In Re: Emergency olme license of 1 
)OSEPH BROWN, RPH 

license No.: PS 26675 

Case No.: 201t-08871 

(Page 1 of 8) 

Final Ortkr FX)H- Il-i -MQA 
tILIIL)1)ATh- 

!kpailriic:it icalth 

B 

lkput\ Agenc) Clerk 



(Page 2 8) 

the State of Florida, in accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida 

Statutes (2010). 

2. At afl times material to this 1 Mr. Brown was licensed 

to practice as a pharmacist, in the State of Florida, pursuant to 

Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

3. On or about May 25, 2011, Respondent, Mr. Brown, was 

the subject of a traffic stop, during which he gave consent to police to 

search his car and his person. During said search, Mr. Brown was 

found to be in possession of ten Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325mg pills 

and four pills of the prescription drug Ambien. 

4. Mr. Brown was arrested by the Palm Beach Sheriff's Office 

and charged with a violation of Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes 

(2010), for possession of hydrocodone, a schedule Ill substance, 

without a prescription. 

5. Mr. Brown was booked into the Palm Beach County Jail at 

11:44 pm on Wednesday, May 25, 2011, and was released on a 

$6,000 bond at 7:05 pm on Thursday, May 26, 2011. 

6. After being advised of his Miranda Rights, Mr. Brown 

admitted the following to police officers: 

In Re: Emergency of the Ucense of 2 
30SEP11 BROWN, RPH 

No.: PS 26675 

Case Mo.: 2011-08871 



(Page 3 of 8) 

a) that he has a substance abuse problem, 

b) that the pills found in his vehicle were taken directly 

out of his pharmacy's stock, 

c) that he did not have a lawful prescription for these 

substances, 

d) that he was personally using 10-20 Ambien and 

1-lydrocodone tablets daily, and 

e) that he has been selling schedule III and IV 

substances to established pharmacy customers 

without a prescription. 

7. Hydrocodone/APAP contains hydrocodone and 

acetaminophen (Tylenol), and is prescribed to treat pain. According to 

Section 893.03(3), Florida Statutes, hydrocodone, in the dosages 

found in hydrocodone/APAP, is a Schedule III controlled substance 

that has a potential for abuse less than the substances in Schedules I 

and II and has a currently accepted medical use in treatment in the 

United States. Abuse of the substance may lead to moderate or low 

physical dependence or high psychological dependence. 

In Re: Suspension of the License of 3 
JOSEPH BROWN, RPH 

Ucense No.: PS 26675 

Case No.: 2011-08871 



(Page 4 8) 

8. Ambien is the brand name for the drug zolpidem, 

prescribed to treat insomnia. According to Title 21, Section 1308.1.4, 

Code of Federal Regulations, zolpidem is a Schedule IV controlled 

substance. Zolpidem can cause dependence and is subject to abuse. 

9. Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes, provides that a 

pharmacist can be disciplined, including suspension, for violating a 

provision of Chapter 893, Florida Statutes. 

10. Mr. Brown violated Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes 

(2010), by violation of 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2010), by 

possessing hydracodofle/APAP, a controlled substance, without a 

prescription, as admitted in his written statement. 

11. Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes, authorizes the 

Department to summarily suspend a pharmacist's license if the 

Department finds that the pharmacist presents an immediate serious 

danger to the public health, safety, or welfare. 

12. In the course of their work, pharmacists have access to 

medications, including controlled substances, which have a high 

likelihood for abuse and harm. They must prepare such drugs in a 

manner that is safe and effective for the patient. Even medications 

In Re: Emergency of the ucense of 4 
JOSEPH BROWN, RPrI 

license No.: PS 26675 

Case No.: 2011-08871 



(Page 5 of B> 

that are not generally considered dangerous may kill or severely harm 

a patient if that patient is allergic to an ingredient or is taking another 

medication that may adversely interact with the prescribed medication. 

13. Controlled substances are contmlled by state and federal 

law because they carry a risk of addiction and, if used in any way 

other than as prescribed by a doctor, the risk of overdose and other 

harmful health effects, in addition to the harm presented by their 

misuse while engaged in dangerous activities, such as operating a 

motor vehide. By diverting controlled substances from a regulated 

pharmacy setting into the illicit drug 1 Mr. Brown's actions 

contribute to the widespread problem of prescription drugs being 

abused in the State of Florida. 

14. Mr. Brown's intentional diversion of controlled substances 

evidences a lack of professional judgment and moral character which 

creates the potential for future diversion if the licensee is allowed to 

continue in the occupation of . Further, his admission that 

he personally has been abusing controlled substances without a 

prescription further elevates the risk that he would continue diverting 

controlled substances. The continued licensure of Mr. Brown 

In Re; Emergency Suspension of the LAcense of 5 
JOSEPH RPFi 

Ucense No.: PS 26675 
Case No.: 2011-08871 



(Page 6 of 8) 

constitutes an immediate serious danger to the health, safety, or 

welfare of the citizens of the State of Florida. Nothing short of the 

immediate suspension of Mr. Brown's license will ensure the protection 

of the public from this danger. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon 

General concludes as follows: 

1. The Department has jurisdiction pursuant to Sections 

20.43 and 456.073(8), Florida Statutes (2010) and Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes. 

2. Mr. Brown violated Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes 

(2010), by violation of Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2010). 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida 

Statutes (2010), it is ORDERED THAT: 

1. The license of JOSEPH BROWN, RPH, License number PS 

26675, is immediately 1 
2. A proceeding seeking formal suspension or disdpline of the 

License of JOSEPH BROWN, RPH, to practice as a pharmacist will be 

In Re; Emergency Su5pension of the License of 6 
JOSEPH BROWN, RPH 

license No.; PS 

Case No: 2011-08871 



(Page 7 of 8) 

promptly instituted and acted upon in compliance with Section 

120.569, Florida Statutes. 

DONE and ORDERED this day of June, 2011. 

H. Frank Farmer, ., M.D., Ph.D. 
State Surgeon General 

PREPARED BY: 

David C. Bibb 
Florida Bar No. 190330 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
(850) 245 — 4640 Telephone 
(850) 245 — 4682 Facsimile 

In Re: Emergency of the Ucense of 
JOSEPH BROWN, RPH 

License No.: PS 26675 
Case No.: 2011-08871 



(Page 8 of 8) 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Sedion 120.68, Florida Statutes, this Order is 

judicially reviewable. Review proceedings are governed by the Florida 

Rules of Appellate Procedure. Proceedings are commenced by filing a 

Petition for Review, in accordance with Florida Rule of Appellate 

Procedure 9.100, with the District Court of Appeal, accompanied by a 

filing fee prescribed by law, and a copy of the petition with the Agency 

Clerk of the Department within 30 days of the date this Order is filed. 

Re: Emergency Suspension of the License 8 
JOSEPH BROWN, RPH 

License No: ps 26675 
Case No.: 2011-08871 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Ptl ITIONER, 

vs. CASE NO. 201.1-08871 

JOSEPH BROWN, RPI-I, 

RESPONDENT. 
I 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner Department of Health, by and through its undersigned 

counsel, files this Administrative Complaint before the Board of Pharmacy 

against Respondent, JOSEPH BROWN, RPH, and in support thereof alleges: 

1. isthe state depdrtment charged with regutatingthe 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Honda Sthtutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At al( times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed pharmacist within the state of Florida, having been issued license 

number PS 2667S. 

3. Respondent's address of record is 6826 Hatteras Drive, Lake 

Worth, Florida 

J:\PSU\Mbeii Number 20t1\arown, 20U-08871\AC 062411.aoc 1 



4. On or about May 25, 2011, Respondent, Mr. Brown, was the 

subject of a traffic stop, during which he gave consent to police to search 

his car and his person. During said search, Mr. Brown was found to be in 

possession of ten .e/APAP 10/325mg pills and four pills of the 

prescription drug Ambien. 

5. Mr. Brown was arrested by the Palm Beach Sheriff's Office and 

charged with a violation of Section 893.13(6)(a), Fbrida Statutes (2010),. 

for possession of hydrocodone, a schedule III substance, without a 

prescription. 

6. Mr. Brown was booked into the Pa'm Beach County Jail at 

11:44 pm on Wednesday, May 25, 2011, and was released on a $6,000 

bond at 7:05 pm on Thursday, May 26,. 201.1. 

7. After being advised of his Miranda Rights, Mr. Brown admitted 

the following to police officers: 

a. that he has a substance abuse problem, 

b. that the pills found in his vehicle were taken directly out 

of his pharmacy's stock, 

c. that he did not have a lawful prescription for these 

substances, 

Numb!r )oscph 2011-08871\AC OE24t.Ldoc 2 



d. that he was personally using 10-20 Ambien and 

Hydrocodone tablets daily, and 

e. that he has been selling schedule and IV substances 

to established pharmacy customers without a 

prescription. 

8. Hydrocodone/APAP contains hydrocodone and acetaminophen 

(Tylenol), and is prescribed to treat pain. According to Section 893.03(3),. 

Florida Statutes, hydrocodone, in the dosages found in 

is a Schedule III controlled substance that has a potential for abuse less 

than the substances in Schedules I and U and has a currently accepted 

medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse of the substance 

may lead to moderate or low physical dependence or psychological 

dependence. 

COUNT I — Violation of Chapter 893 

9. Petitioner reasserts the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 8 

of this complaint as if set out herein at length. 

10. Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes, provides that a 

pharmacist can be disciplined, including suspension, for violating a 

provision of Chapter 893, Florida Statutes. 

Number 201 )Oseph 20U-08871\W 3 



11. On or about May 25, 2011, Mr. Brown was in possession of 

hydrocodone/APAP, a controlled substance, without a prescription, as 

admitted in his written statement. 

12. Mr. Brown violated Section 465.016(l)(e), florida Statutes 

(2010), by violation of 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2010), by 

possessing hydrocodone/APAP, a controlled substance, without a 

prescription. 

COUNT II — Dispensing or Distribution Drugs 
Outside the Professional Practice of Pharmacy 

13. Petitioner reasserts the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 8 

of this complaint as if set out herein 'at length. 

14. Section 465.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes (2010), provides that a 

pharmacist can be disciplined, induding suspension, for compounding 

dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, including any controlled 

substance, other than in the professional practice of pharmacy. 

15. As demonstrated by his possession of Hydrocodone and 

Ambien without a prescription and as admitted in his statement to police, 

both on May 25, 2011, Respondent improperly diverted legend drugs, 

including controlled substances, from his pharmacy stocks without a 

prescription, and gave those to drugs himself and to others. 

Number 20U\Srown. 3oseph 0624fl.cjoc 4 



16. Respondent violated Section 4655,016(1)(!), Florida Statutes 

(2010), by distributing legend drugs, including controlled substances, other 

than in the course Of the professional practice of pharmacy. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 2 cf 
day of . 2011. 

ft Prank Farmer, Jr.,M.D., Ph.D. 
State 

C. Bibb 
Assistant General Counsel 
Florida Bar No. 190330 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
850.245.4640 
85t1245.4682 fax 

1:\PSLJ\Aftied Number 30sep11 06?4lLdOc S 

OF HeALTh 
DEPUTY CLERK 

PCP Date: - 11 

PCP Members: 



DOH v. )OSEPH BROWN, RPH, CASE NO. 201.1-08871 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

Heaith\PMrmacy\Case Number 2011\8rown, Joseph 2011 6 



STATE OF FLORIDA 12 APR30 4fl 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

V. CASE NO. 2011-08871 

JOSEPH BROWN, R.PH., 

RESPONDENT. 

____________I 

SETTLEMENT AGREEM ENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.5/(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, JOSEPH BROWN, R.Ph., was 

a licensed pharmacist in the state of Florida, having been issued license 

number PS 26675. Respondent's mailing address of record is 6826 Hateras 

Drive, Lake Worth, Florida 33467. 

DOH v. Joseph Brown, RPh 

Case No. 1 



2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaints, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department. 

2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaints, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of 

3. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaints, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

1. - Respondent, JOSEPH BROWN, R.Ph., shall be 

present when this Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and 

under oath shall answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this 

case and its disposition. 

0011 v. Joseph Brown, RPIi 
Case No.201 



2. The Board of Pharmacy shaH impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount of THREE ThOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 

TWENTY-NINE DOLLARS AND FIFTY-ONE CENTS ($3,529.51). Total 

costs shall be assessed when the Settlement Agreement is presented to the 

Board. The costs shalt be paid by Respondent to the Department of 

Health, Compliance Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 

6320, Tallahassee, Florida 3231.4-6320, within four (4) years from the 

date the Final Order is filed with the Department Clerk. 

3. Evaluation and - Respondent shall enter and 

successfully participate in a Professional Resource Network (PRN) contract. 

4. - Upon reinstatement of licensure, Respondent shall 

be placed on a minimum of four (4) years probation. During the period of 

probation, Respondent shall be subject to the following terms and 

conditions; 

a. Respondent shaH not function as a prescription 

department manager in any Florida permitted pharmacy during 

the first 2 years of probation; 

DOH v. Joseph &own, RPh 
Case No. 2011.08871 



b. Respondent shalt not work 'at or for more than 2 

pharmacies during each quarter of. the probationary period, 

unless Respondent obtains prior written approval from the 

Board; 

c. Respondent shalt submit written reports to the 

Compliance Officer for the Medical Quality 

Assurance/Compliance Management Unit, Compliance Officer, 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-01, 32399-3251. These reports 

shall include Respondent's license number, current address, 

and phone number; current name, address, and phone number 

of each pharmacy in which Respondent is engaged in the 

practice of pharmacy; the names of all pharmacists, pharmacy 

interns, pharmacy tedinicians, relief pharmacists, and 

prescription department managers working with Respondent. 

These reports shall be submitted to the Compliance Officer 

every 3 months in a manner as directed by the compliance 

officer; 

d. Respondent shall ensure that his employer submits 

written reports to the Compliance Officer for the Medical 

DOH v. Joseph Brown, RFh 
Case 



Quality Assurance/Comphance Management Unit, Compliance 

Officer, 4052 6ald Cypress Way, Bin C-O1, 32399-325L These 

reports shall contain the name, address, license number, and 

phone number of each pharmacy intern, pharmacy technician, 

relief pharmacist, and prescription department manager 

working in the prescription department where Respondent 

practices, and provide a brief description of Respondent's 

duties, responsibilities, and working schedule. These reports 

shall be submitted to the Compliance Officer every 3 months in 

a manner as directed by the compliance officer; 

e. Respondent shall comply with any and all 

recommendations from PRN; and 

f. Respondent shall make a mandatory appearance before 

the Board of Pharmacy during his last year of probation. 

5. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499 or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

DOH v. Joseph Brown, RPh 
Case No.201 I-0S871 



6. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board for which dlsdpllnary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Flonda Statutes. 

7. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

8. Purpose of Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or condusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

DOH v. Joseph Brown, RPh 
Case No.201 l-0S871 



the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further partidpation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedR-Igs. 

9. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

10. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent wawes 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

11. Waiver of Procedural - Respthdent waives alt rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

12. Current - Respondent shall keep current his/its 

mailing address and his/its practice address with the Board of Pharmacy 

and the Compliance Officer and shall notify the hoard of Pharmacy and the 

DOH v. Joseph Brown, RP1i 

Case No, 201 



Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this 

matter. 

SIGNED this 

____ 

day of , 2012. 

SEPFI BROWN, R.Pl-L 
Case 

STATE OF 

} 
COUNIY OF L(/7J &'thi } 

Before me personaUy appeared JOSEPH BROWN, R.PH, whose 

identit:y is known to me or by (type of 
identification), and who, under oath, acknowledges that hisslgnature 

appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 

2012. 

Dawn L Strolla 
Commission S DD$22691 

14,2012 

Pu 

My Commission Expires: 

0011 v. Joseph Brown, RPh 
Case No. 201 I 



APPROVED this day of ( - 2012. 

STEVEN L. HARRIS, M.D., M.Sc. 
Interim State Surgeon General 
florida Department 01: Health 

NXCHO LAS W. ROMAN ELLO 
General Counsel 
Florida Department of Health 

WM. FREEMAN MILLER 
Attorney Supervisor 
Proseqution Services Unit 

ioiipA 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0084752 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
1052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4640 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: john_fruitt@doh.state.fl. us 

DOH v. Joseph Brown, RPh 
Case No. 201 



Final Order No DOHI 
FILED DAtJU 

Depaiirnent of Health 
STATE OF FLORIDA ç'() 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

vs. CASENO.: 201 1-08871 
LICENSE NO.: PS 26675 

JOSEPH T. BROWN, R.PH., 
Respondent. 

_____________________________________________________/ 

FINAL ORDER APPROVING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS CAUSE came before the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the "Board") pursuant to 

Section .57(4), Florida Statutes, on June 6, 2012 in Deerfield Beach, Florida, for 

consideration of a Settlement Agreement (attached hereto as Exhibit A) entered into between the 

parties in the above-styled cause. Upon consideration of the Settlement Agreement, the 

documents submitted in support thereof, and being otherwise advised in the premises, it is hereby 

ordered and adjudged: 

(1) The Settlement Agreement as submitted is hereby approved, adopted and 

incorporated herein by reference. Accordingly, the parties shall adhere to and abide by all the 

terms of the Settlement Agreement. 

(2) As authorized by the Settlement Agreement the Board finds that the costs of 

investigation and prosecution are $3,529.51. 

This Final Order shall take effect upon being filed with the Clerk of the Department of 

Health. 

DONE AND this day ,201 2. 



BOARD OF PHARMACY 

Daisy Administrator for 
Cynthia Griffin, PharmU, Chair 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW UNLESS WAIVED 

A PARTY WHO IS ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY THIS ORDER IS ENTITLED TO 
JUDICIAL REVIEW, UNLESS WAIVED, PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.68, FLORIDA 
STATUTES. PROCEEDINGS ARE GOVERNED BY THE FLORIDA RULES OF 
APPELLATE PROCEDURE. SUCH PROCEEDINGS ARE COMMENCED BY FILING ONE 
COPY OF THE NOTICE OF APPEAL WITH THE AGENCY CLERK OF THE 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND A SECOND COPY, ACCOMPANIED BY FILING FEES 
PRESCRIBED BY LAW, WITH THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS, FIRST DISTRICT, 
OR WITH THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE APPELLATE DISTRICT WHERE 
THE PARTY RESIDES. THE NOTICE OF APPEAL MUST BE FILED WITHiN THIRTY 
(30) DAYS OF RENDITION OF THE ORDER TO BE REVIEWED. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Final Order has been 

provided by U.S. Mail to Joseph T. Brown, R.Ph. at 6826 Hatteras Drive, Lake Worth, Florida 

33467; by interoffice delivery to John Truitt, Assistant General Counsel, Department of Health, 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265, and by interoffice delivery to 

Allison Dudley, Assistant Attorney General, Department of Legal Affairs, The Capitol, PL-0l, 

Tallahassee, Fl 32399-1050 this day of 

297fl 0003 2 
2012. 

Deputy Agency Clerk 



14:37 EXPRESS RX PAGE a2/@3 

ILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
ACTION CLERK Angel Sanders 

DENIAL OF RENEWAL DATF. 
APR 1 2011 

l2,2013 

T Brown 
6826 1-letteras Diive 
Lake Worth, FL 33467 

RE: Apphcatlon for Pharmacist License No. 26675 

Dear Mr Brown; 

This letter is notification that your application for renewal of Pharmacist license no. 26675 Is denied. 

On or about May 21, 2012 you were were convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob 
contendere to, regardless of adjudtcation, a felony under chapter 893, Florida Statutes A copy of the 
Judgerrient of conviction or plea is attached hereto, Incorporated herein and made a part hereof by 
reference as Exhibit A. 

This conviction, plea, or termination with cause requires denial of renewal of a license as provided in 
section 456.0635, FlorIda Statutes, which provides, "Each board within the jurisdiction of the 
department, or the department if there is no board, shall refuse to Issue or renew a license, certificate, 
or registration to any applicant if the candidate or applicant or any principal officer, agent. managing 
employee, or affiliated person of the applicant has been; convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or 
nob contenclere to, regardless of adjudication, a felony under chapter 893, Florida Statutes. 

This notice is agency action for purposes of section 120,569, Florida Statutes. If you believe 
your Substantial Interests have been determined by this action, you have twenty-one (21) dayS from the 
date of your receipt of this notice to petition for an administrative hearing pursuant to sectson 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, by sending a petition to the Agency Clerk, Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress 
Way, BIN #A-02, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1703 or by delivering a petition to the Agency Clerk, 
Department of Health, 2585 Merchants Row Blvd., Prather Building, Suite 110, Tallahassee, FL. Such 
petition must be filed in conformance with Florida Administrative Code Rules 28-106.201 or 28- 
106301, as applicable. Mediation is not aVailable. Failure to file a petition withIn 21 days shall 
constitute a waiver of the right to a disputed fact hearing on this agency action. Should you choose to 
waive your right to such a hearing, the Department will move for entry of a final order. Once a final 
order is entered you have 30 days provided in sectIon 12.068, FlorIda Statutes, to file an appeal. 
Such appeal must be initiated by filing a notice of appeal with the Department of Health agency cleric 
and a copy to the district court of appeal in accordance with the provisions of Florida Rule of Appellate 
Procedure 9.110; 

DONE and ORDERED this 12th day of AprIl, 2013 in Tallahassee, Leon County. Florida. 

John R Armstrong, MD 
State Surgeon General 



05/06/2012 14:37 5616428457 EXPRESS RX PAGE 

By: 

Mar itten 
Ot Pharmacy 

Cc: Agency Clerk, Department of Health 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing notice has been provided by 
certified mail to Joseph I Brown 6626 Hatteras Drwe Lake Worth, FL 33467 and by interoffice mail to 
Jani a 8. Attorney, and the Bureau of Operations, Florida Department of Health this 
t ayof 

Deputy AgenCY Clerk 

Jijilli UUU2 2383 3?73 
.1 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


<Page 1 of 9) 

Rick Scott 1-IEALTI-!] 
John H. Armstrong, M.D. 

Governor State Surgeon General 

June 28, 2012 

Mr. Joseph 1. Brown 
6826 Hatteras Drive 
Lake Worth, FL 33467 

Compliance Reference Number: 201108571 

Dear Mr. Brown: 

Your licensing Board has imposed specific obligations in the above-referenced Final Order. 
Attached are information sheets to assist you in complying with these requirements. 

All terms must be completed on or before the specified due dates. Additional disciplinary action 
may be taken against your license if the requirements are not received by the due date. 

Please reference the case number listed above on all correspondence forwarded to this office 
pertaining to this case. Your Compliance Officer may change during your monitoring because 
of staff changes and workload distribution. If you wish to return to active practice after your 
obligations have been met, you must continue to timely renew your license. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect and promote the health of all residents 
and visitors in the state through organized state and community efforts, induding cooperative 
agreements between counties. If you have any questions, please contact me at (850) 245- 
4268. 

Sincerely, 

Sondra N. Allen 
Operations Analyst ii 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance 
Consumer Services Unit-Compliance Management Team 

4052 Ball Cypress Way, Bin C-76, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3251 
TELEPHONE; (850) 245-4268 

FAX: (850) 488-0796 



(Page 2 of 9) 

DIVIStOn of Department of Health Medicoi QuoutyAuuronce 
Compliance Management Team 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C76 i\/t Tallahassee, FL 323399 
(850) 2454268 

MAIN TERMS OF THE FINAL ORDER 
- case Number: This summary is provided as a courtesy. It is your 201108871 responsibility to read and understand the Final Order to Respondent Name: ensure compliance with all terms described therein. Please Joseph T Brown rote oncp the case number listed On all corresoondence Final Order Date: 

forwarded to this office pertaining to this case. 612812012 
Todays Date: 

6128/2012 

Licensee: Joseph T Brown Profession: 2201 Pharmacist 
MaIling 6826 Hatteras Drive File Nbr; 15724 
Address: Lake Worth, FL License Nbr: 26675 

License Status: Probation 

Attorney: Corey Strolla Address: 2247 Palm Beach Lakes Boulevard 
Suite 107 
West Palm Beach. FL 33409 

Phone: 561-802-8987 
Monitor: None on Record 
Supervisor: None on Recoi-d 

Appeal: N 

Discipline Imposed: Start Date End Date Comments 
Emergency Suspension 06/02/2011 06/27/2012 
Probation 06/28/2012 

1O/0W2012 0P4D 



(Page 3 of 9) 

Medical Asourance 
Department of Health 

Compliance Management Team 

M 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C76 
— Tallahassee, FL 323399 

(850) 245-4268 

Compliance Record: Due Date Cmpl Date Amt Imposed Amt Paid 
PRN Evaluation 0810312012 

PRN Contract 07/28/2012 
Respondent Report 09128/2012 

Report 09/28/2012 
Respondent Report 12/28/2012 
Supervisors Report 12/28/2012 
Respondent Report 03/28/2013 
Supervisors Report 03/2812013 
Respondent Report 06(28/2013 

Supervisors Report 06/28/2013 
Respondent Report 09/2812013 

Supervisors Report 09/28/2013 
Respondent Report 12/28/2013 
Supervisor's Report 12128/2013 

Respondent Report 03/2812014 
Supervisor's Report 0312812014 

Respondent Report 06/28/2014 
Supervisor's Report 06/28/2014 
Respondent Report 09/28/2014 
Supervisors Report 09/28/2014 
Respondent Report 12/28/2014 
Supervisor's Report 12/28/2014 
Respondent Report 03/28/2015 
Supervisors Report 03/28/2015 

Respondent Report 06/28/2015 
Supervisor's Report 06/28/2015 
Respondent Report 09/28/2015 
Supervisors Report 09/28/2015 
Respondent Report 12/28/2015 
Supervisor's Report 12128/2015 

Respondent Report 03/28/2016 
Supervisors Report 03/28/2016 
Costs 128/2016 3,529.51 0.00 
Respondent Report 06/28/2016 

Supervisor's Report 06/28/2016 
Miscdtaneous 
Miscellaneous 
Appearances 

,nply.p_dx0002L: 10109/201215:09.28 OND 



(Page 4 of 9) 

COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT UNIT 
FINEICOSTS INVOICE 

Respondent: Joseph 1. Brown 

Profession- 
License 
Number: 

2201 Pharmacist 

26675 

lndv/Org # 5013340 

File Number: 15724 Case Number 201108871 

Administrative Costs: - $ 3,529.51 Due Date: June 28, 2018 

$ 3,529.51 TOTAL: 

Partial payment shall be accepted, however full payment must be made by the due date 
specified in the Final Order. Each payment must be accompanied by a copy of this 
invoice. Please make additional copies If needed. 

IMPORTANT: Payment in full of all fines and costs imposed by your Final Order are due upon the due date 
specified by the Final Order. Failure to pay all fines and costs on or before the due date specified will result in the 
following: 

A referral will be filed with Consumer Services for Investigation regarding no-compliance with your Final 
Order and possible further disciplinary action. 

Failure to pay in full within thirty (30) days of the due date specified by the Final Order will result in the 
account being deemed "past due" Payment of "past due" accounts wiJi avoid assignment to a collection 
agency for collection; however it will result in dosing of the referral for with your Final 
Order." 

To receive credit for your payment attach cashier's check or money order here 
and return to: 

Please make checks payable to the Department of Health 

Department of Health 
Compliance Management Unit, BIN C-76 

P.O. Box 6320 
Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320 



(Page 5 of 9> 

Please print or write legibly. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
SUPERVISOR'S QUARTERLY REPORT 

Respondent's Name: 
rRespondents License Number Case Number: 

. 

I 

City State Zip 

Monitor: 

Address: 

Telephone Number 

Address: 

Telephone Number 

Quarter (3 months) 

City State Zip 

From: To: 

Brief statement of why Respondent is on probation: 

Description of current practice (type and composition) and location: 

Brief statement of compliance with probationary terms: 



(Page 6 of 9> 

Brief statement of licensee's relationship with supervising person: 

Detail any problems which may have arisen with licensee 

Signature: Date:_ 

Mailing Address: Department of Health, Compliance Management Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C76 • Tallahassee, FL 32399 

Fax: (850) 488-0796 



Please print or write legibly. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
RESPONDENT'S QUARTERLY REPORT 

Respondent's Name: 

Case Number 
1 

Respondent's License Number 
1 

Address: . 

City State Zip 
Telephone Number . 

Monitor: 

Address: 

City 

Telephone Number 

Quarter (3 months) From: 

: 

State 
. 

To: 

Zip 

Brief statement of why Respondent is on probation: 

Description of current practice and location: 

Brief statement of compliance with probationary terms: 

(?age 7 of 9) 



(Page 8 of 9) 

Brief statement of relationship with supervising person: 

Detail any problems which may have arisen with licensee 

Signature: Date: — 

Mailing Address: Department of Health, Compliance Management Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C76 • Tatlahassee, FL 32399 

Fax: (850) 488-0796 



(Page 9 of 9) 

Please print or write legibfy. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
RESPONDENT'S QUARTERLY REPORT 

Respondent's Name: 

Respondent's License Number: Case Number 

Address: 

City State Zip 
Telephone Number 

Reporting Period From: To: 

Please initial 

According to the terms of my final order, am required to notify the Department of 
Health of my employment status as a Pharmacist. I am not employed as a 
Pharmacist. 

Signature: Date: 

Mailing Address: Department of Health, Compliance Management Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C76 • Tallahassee, FL 32399 

Fax: (850) 4a8-0796 



(Pe;e 1 of 7) 

Page 1 of 2 

Nelson, Sondra I I i') 
J 

From: Nelson, Sondra 

Sent Monday, October 15, 2012 8:58 AM 

To: 'Joseph Brown' 

Subject: RE: Resondant report 

Hi Mr. Brown, 

Sorry, was out of the office on Friday. Your fax has been received. Thank you. 

From: Joseph Brown 
Sent: Friday, October 12, 2012 1:24 PM 

To: Nelson, Sondra 
Subject: Re: Resondant report 

Hi Sondra, I just wanted to make sure you received the fax this morning. Thanks again, 
Joseph Brown 

From: .state.fl.us" <Sondra_Nelson@doh.state.fl.us> 
To: joethrown@beilsouth.net 
Sent: Thu, October 11, 2012 5:02:47 PM 

Subject: RE: Resondant report 

You're welcome. Yes, please send me a copy of the PRN letter. You can email it to me or fax it to 850-488-0796. 
Thank you. 

From: Joseph Brown mailto:joetbrown@bellsouth.net] 
Sent: Thursday, October 11, 2012 4:43 PM 

To: Nelson, Sandra 
Subject: Re: Resondant report 

Thank you for the email. I have been with PRN since September of 2011. Do you need a copy of the 
contract from them? 

Joseph T. Brown PS26675 

From: <Sondra_Nelson@doh.sthte.fl.us> 
To: joetbrown@bellsouth.net 
Sent: Tue, October 9, 2012 3:57:08 PM 

Subject: RE: Resondant report 

Hi Mr. Brown, 

I'm sorry I haven't responded sooner but I've beer oul of the office. i've attached the information packet that was 
sent to you June 28, 2012. I have also requested that the Board office give you a call regarding ilcensure renewal 
but they are currently out of the office at a Pharmacy Board meeting so it will be later in the week when they are 
able to call you. Please let me know it you have any questions. Thanks. 

10/i 5/2012 



(Page 2 of 7> 

Page 1 of 2 

Nelson, Sandra 

From: Joseph Brown Uoetbrown@bellsouth.net] 

Sent: Friday, October 12, 2012 1:24 PM 

To: Nelson, Sondra 

Subject: Re: Resondant report 

Hi Sondra, I just wanted to make sure you received the fax this morning. Thanks again, 
Joseph Brown. 

From: "Sondra " <Sondra_Nelson@doh.state.fl.us> 
To: joetbrown@bellsouth.net 
Sent: Thu, October 11, 2012 5:02:47 PM 
Subject: RE: Resondant report 

You're welcome, Yes, please send me a copy of the PRN letter. You can email it to me or fax it to 850-488-0796. 
Thank you. 

From: Joseph Brown mailto :joetbrown@bellsouth. net] 
Sent: Thursday, October 11, 2012 4:43 PM 
To: Nelson, Sondra 
Subject: Re: Resondant report 

Thank you for the email. I have been with PRN since September of 2011. Do you need a copy of the 
contract from them? 

Joseph T. Brown PS26675 

From: "Sondra Nelson@doh.state.fl, us" <Sond rafielson©doh.state.fl.us> 
To: joethrown©bellsouth .net 
Sent: Tue, October 9, 2012 3:57:08 PM 

Subject: RE: Resondant report 

Hi Mr. Brown, 

I'm sorry I haven't responded sooner but I've been Out of the office. I've attached the information packet that was sent to you June 28, 2012. have also requested that the Board office give you a call regarding hcensure renewal but they are currently out of the office at a Pharmacy Board meeting so it will be later in the week when they are able to call you. Please let me know if you have any questions. Thanks. 

Prom: Joseph Brown mailto:joetbrown@bellsouth.net] 
Sent: Friday, October 05, 2012 1:11 PM 
To: Nelson, Sondra 
Subject: Resondant report 

Hi Sondra, this is to confirm that I am unemployed as of today, and waiting to hear how to renew my 

10/15/2012 



(Page 3 of 7) 

Page 1 of 2 

Nelson, Sondra 

From: Joseph Brown (joetbrown@bellsouth.net] 

Sent: Thursday, October11, 2012 8:55 PM 

To: Nelson, Sondra 

Subject: Re: Resondant report 

Hi Sondra, I also wanted to tell you if there were any questions feel free to contact 
Delena Torrence at PRN, she is my case manager. The phone number is 
1-800-888-8776 Et. 216. Her email is 

Again, thanks for you help. 

Joseph T. Brown PH26675. 

From: <Sondra_Nelson@doh.state.fl.us> 
To: joethrown@bellsouth.net 
Sent: Thu, October 11, 2012 5:02:47 PM 

Subject: RE: Resondarit report 

You re welcome. Yes, please send me a copy of the PRN letter. You can email it to me or fax it to 850-488-0796. 
Thank you. 

From: Joseph Brown mallto:joetbrown@bellsouth.net] 
Sent: Thursday, October 11, 2012 4:43 PM 

To: Nelson, Sondra 
Subject: Re: Resondant report 

Thank you for the email. I have been with PRN since September of 2011. Do you need a copy of the 
contract from them? 

Joseph T. Brown PS26675 

From: <Sondra_Nelson©doh.state.fius> 
To: joetbrown@bellsouth.net 
Sent: Tue, October 9, 2012 3:57:08 PM 

Subject: RE: Resondant report 

Hi Mr. Brown, 

!'rn sorry haven't responded sooner but i've been out of the office. I've attached the information packet that was 
sent to you June 28, 2012. I have also requested that the Board office give you a call regarding licensure renewal 
but they are currenfiy out of the office at a Pharmacy Board meeting so it will be later in the week when they are 
able to call you. Please let me know if you have any questions. Thanks. 

prom: Joseph Brown tmailto:joetbrown©bellsouth.net) 

10/15/2012 



(Page 4 of 7) 

Page 1 of2 

Nelson, Sondra 

From: Joseph Brown .netj 
Sent; Thursday, October 11, 2012 8:37 PM 

To: Nelson, Sandra 

Subject: Re: Resondant report 

J will fax it Friday, thank you. 

Joseph T. Brown PS26675 

From: 'Sondra_Nelson@doh.state.fl.us" .us> 
To: joetbrown@bellsotith.net 
Sent: Thu, October 1, 2012 5:02:47 PM 
Subject: RE: Resondant report 

You're welcome. Yes, please send me a copy of the PRN letter. You can email it to me or fax it to 850-488-0796. 
Thank you. 

From: Joseph Brown Emailto:ioetbrown© bellsouth .netj 
Sent: Thursday, October 11, 2012 4:43 PM 

To: Nelson, Sondra 
Subject: Re: Resondant report 

Thank you for the email. I have been with PRN since September of 2011. Do you need a copy of the 
contract from them? 

Joseph T. Brown PS26675 

From: us> 
To: joetbrown@bellsouth.net 
Sent: The, October 9, 2012 3:57:08 PM 

Subject: RE: Resondant report 

Hi Mr. Brown, 

Im sorry I flavent responded sooner but I've been out of the office. I've attached the information packet that was 
sent to you June 28, 2012. I have also requested that the Board office give you a call regarding licensure renewal 
but they are currently out of the office at a Pharmacy Board meeting so it will be later in the week when they are 
able to call you. Prease let me know if you have any questions. Thanks. 

From: 30sep11 Brown tmailto:)oethrown@beusouth.net] 
Sent: FrIday, October 05, 2012 1:11 PM 
To: Nelson, Sondra 
Subject: Resondant report 

10/15/2012 



(Page 5 of 7) 

Page 2 of 2 

Hi Sondra, this is to confirm that I am unemployed as of today, and waiting to hear how to renew my 
Pharmacist license. I did receive my 
board order in the mail, but not the information packet. You can email me at 

Thank you for your help, 

Joseph T. Brown, PS26675. 

10/15/2012 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

______________ 

of all people in Florida through integrated - - 

- John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nafion 

September 18, 2013 

Arlen Trevor Harter 
1270 Boston Lane 
Bradenton, FL 34212 

RE: Application for Licensure by Examination 

Dear Mr. Harter: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, October 9, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. The meeting begins at 
1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.floridaspharmacy. gov/meeting-information/upcoming-meetings/. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Sincerely, 

Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy ITTER:HeatthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


e 1 of 21) 'l 
FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

P.O. Box 6320 • Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

Phone: (850) 245-4292 

.doh.state.fI.usImqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #2 —PHARMACIST EXAMINATION APPLICATION 

FOR U.S. AND PUERTO RICO GRADUATES 

FEE: $295.00 

05.114/2013 : 43350 

BT: 3020824 

VL: 912061192 

295.00 
Type: F 

Please orint or type legibly. 

1. Biographical data 

Last name 
J 

First name 
Middle name 

f-lckr+er 
j 

Tctvor 
State 

Street address ML — Mailin Address l 
WorkaddressPL- 

Location 
Ci 

Business hone number 
E-mail address 

Home phone numbe 
99i 

Date of birth 
Place of birth 

)1/ 
2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not in anji way affectyour candidacy for ilcensure. 

OHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 

3. Have you ever changed your name through marriage or through action of a court or have you ever 

been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the change(s) below. Use a 

separateshapi, if necessary. 

Yes_ — 

Name 

4. Name of Univers 

5. Date of graduation 6. Type of degree earned 
7. Have ever been licensed as an 

intern in Florida? 

Uoc-br of 
No 

Intern License number: 

DH-MQA 101, 09/09 
Rule 64916.28.203 F.A.C 

Page 2 of 9 

HEAIIH 



age 4 of 21) 

8. Are you planning to transfer your 9. Did you transfer your NAPLEXe score to Florida 

score to Florida? If yes, please indicate within the past three (3) years? 

approximate date of transfer. 

Date of transfer: Yes 
No V 

10. Would you be willing to provide health services in special needs shelters or to help staff disaster 

medical assistance teams during times of emergency or major ? 
No 

11. Have you to take the Florida Pharmacist Examination? If yes, please indicate the date. 

12. List all experience earned as an intern. If you have been a registered pharmacist for at least one ) 
year, list only your pharmacist experience. If you graduated after January 1, 2001 with a Pharm.D. 

Degree, it is not necessary to complete this section Note: you must submit one (1) Internship or Work 

Experience Form - Form B fitem #4) for each employer listed . Use a separate sheet, if 
necessary 

Dates Employer 
Intern or pharmacy 

Location . 

experience 
Total hours 

13. List all state(s) in which you have held currently hold a pharmacist license. Note: you must 

submit one (1) Licensure Verification Form (Item #5) for each state listed . Use a separate sheet, 

if . 
State License number Date issued 

14. Special testing accommodations — please indicate if you require special testing accommodations due to 

a disability, or if you have a religious conflict with the scheduled examination date. If yes. complete the 

Application for Candidates Requesting Special Testing Accommodations in Accordance with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act," form DH-MQA 4000. 6/08. which may be downloaded from the 

Department's website at http:I!www.doh.state.fiuslmC*a!eXamlSoeCteSt.htm. or you may contact 
Services by phone a1j850) 245-4252 for detailed information and an . All requests 

must be in writing and include supporting documents. 

Yes No 

15. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendere, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 
Yes No 

DH-MQA '101, 09/09 Page 3 of 9 
Rule 64B16-26.203, F.A.C. 

Yes 
No V 

Date of exam: 

Yes No Date 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record of conviction. 

Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 



?age 6 of 21) 

20. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 
in this state or any other state? 

Yes V No 

21. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No I 
22. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 
817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 
control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If no, go to question ) 
Yes NoV' 
24. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 
date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent ? 
Yes No 

24a. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6) (a), Florida . 
Yes No 

24b. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 
it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No 
24c. If "yes" to 23, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No 
25. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395-1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid ? 
Yes No 
25a. If "yes" to 25, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 
and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes No______ 

26. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.91 3, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 27.) 

DH-MQA 101, 09/09 Page 5 of 9 
Rule 64B16-26.203, F.A.C. 



'age 7 of 21) 

Yes No ¶1 

27. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

28. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program?, 
If no, do not answer 28a and ) 
Yes No 1 
28a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 
for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

28b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

29. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? 

Yes________ No (If yes, provide supporting documentation) 

30. If "yes" to any of the questions 23 through 29 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled in 
an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes No 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 16-29, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit 
a certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or 
all if applicable. 

Section 456.013(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any 
material change in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place between the initial 
filing of the application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the 
department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements 
shall form the basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any 
investigations they deem appropriate and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize 
them to furnish any information they may have or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, 
institution, association, board or any municipal, county, state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I 

understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a pharmacist's license may be revoked or 
suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other thing, in 

for a license or permit, as set forth in 456.01 5(2)(a), F.S. 
1I'ZI'iAi- 

Applicant Signature Date U 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

DH-MQA 101, 09/09 Page 6 of 9 
Rule 64B16-26.203, F.A.C. 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 2 of 24) 

rALTH 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

IN RE: THE APPLICATION OF 

ARLENHARTER 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO APPROVE LICENSE WITH CONDITIONS 

This matter appeared before the Board of Pharmacy at a duly-noticed public meeting held 

on February 10,2010, in Jacksonville, Florida, for consideration of an application for a license as 

a Registered Pharmacy Technician. The applicant was not present. Upon consideration of the 

information provided, and being otherwise advised in the premises, the Board has determined 

that the application for a license as a Registered Pharmacy Technician is conditionally approved 

with the following conditions and restrictions on licensure: 

I. The applicant shall obtain an evaluation from the Professionals' Resource 

Network (PRN) and comply with any recommendation made by PRN. 

2. If PRN does not recommend a contract, then the license shall issue 

unencumbered, upon notification of same to the Chair of the Board. 

3. If PRN recommends a contract, then the license shall issue upon PRN's 

notification to the Chair of the Board that the applicant is in compliance with a recommended 

contract and the applicant is able to practice with reasonable skill and safety. 

4. The Board delegates the authority to assess compliance with this Notice and 

authorizes issuance of the license when its Chair finds the applicant has met the above listed 

condition. 

5. The Board proposes these restrictions for the following reasons: 





(Page 4 of 24) 

OF RIGHT TO HEARING 

THIS NOTICE CONSTITUTES A FiNAL ORDER AND FINAL AGENCY ACTION IF NO 
REQUEST FOR A HEARING IS RECEIVED BY THE BOARD ON OR BEFORE THE 
TWENTY-FIRST DAY AFTER THE APPLICANT'S RECEIPT OF THE NOTICE. THE 
APPLICANT MAY REQUEST A HEARING BY FILING AN APPROPRIATE PETITION 
WITH THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE BOARD AT 4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY, 
BIN # C-04, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-3256. THE APPLICANT MAY PETITION 
FOR A HEARiNG INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT BEFORE AN 
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.57 (1), FLORIDA 
STATUTES, OR FOR A HEARING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL 
FACT PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.57 (2) FLORIDA STATUTES. 

A PETITION FOR A HEARING INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL 
FACT MUST CONTAIN INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RIfLE 28-106.201, FLORIDA 
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, INCLUDING A STATEMENT OF ALL DISPUTED ISSUES OF 
MATERIAL FACT. THE BOARD MAY REFER A PETITiON TO THE DIVISION OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS FOR ASSIGNMENT OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE LAW 
JUDGE ONLY IF THE PETITION IS IN SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULE 
REQUIREMENTS. A PETITION FOR A PROCEEDING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED 
ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT MUST CONTAIN INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 
28.106.301 FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, INCLUDiNG A CONCISE STATEMENT 
OF THE ULTIMATE FACTS ALLEGED, AS WELL AS THE RULES AND STATUTES 
WHICH ENTITLE PETITIONER TO RELIEF. 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 120.573, FLORIDA STATUTES MEDIATION IS NOT 
AVAILABLE. 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

SHOULD THIS NOTICE BECOME FINAL AGENCY ACTION, A PARTY WHO IS 

ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY THE ORDER IS ENTITLED TO JUDICIAL REVIEW, 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.68, FLORIDA STATUTES. PROCEEDINGS ARE 
GOVERNED BY THE FLORIDA RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE. SUCH 
PROCEEDINGS ARE COMMENCED BY FILING ONE COPY OF THE NOTICE OF 

APPEAL WITL-I THE AGENCY CLERK OF THE DEPARThIENT OF HEALTH AND A 

SECOND COPY ACCOMPANIED BY FILING FEES PRESCRIBED BY LAW, WITH THE 

DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS, FIRST DISTRICT, OR WITH THE DISTRICT COURT 



(Page 5 of 24) 

OF APPEAL IN THE APPELLATE DISTRICT WHERE THE PARTY RESIDES. THE 

NOTICE OF APPEAL MUST BE FILED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF RENDITION OF 

THE ORDER TO BE REVIEWED. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been furnished by 

Certified Mail to Arlen Harter at 1270 Boston Lane, Bradenton, Florida 34212; by interoffice 

mail to Allison Dudley, Assistant Attorney General, Office of the Attorney General, PL-Ol, The 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050; this jj_ day of 'flt2JrJ1J\ , 2010. 

US. 
CERTIFIED MAiL RECEIPT 
(Doinostic No 

F 

USE 1 

v i 
*_ — 
$ 

-t 

—J 

- I 

Deputy Agency Clerk 



Final Order No. MQA 
FILED DATE 

Department of Hea 

By: 
STATE OF FLORIDA Deputy Agency Clerk 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

vs. DOH Case No.: 2007-37871 
License No.: PSI 15661 

ARLEN T. HARTER, PSI, 

Respondent. 

____________________________________________________________________ 

/ 

FINAL ORDER 

THIS MATTER came before the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter "the Board") at 

a duly noticed public meeting on June 11, 2008, in Orlando, Florida for a hearing not 

involving disputed issues of material fact pursuant to Respondent's completion of an 

Election of Rights form requesting a hearing pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 

120.57(2), Florida Statutes. Petitioner filed an Administrative Complaint seeking 

disciplinary action against Respondent's license to practice as a pharmacy intern. A 

copy of the Administrative Complaint is attached to and made a part of this Final Order. 

Petitioner was represented by Billie Jo Owens, Assistant General Counsel, with 

the Department of Health. Respondent was neither present nor represented by counsel. 

The prosecuting attorney offered the investigative file into evidence to prove the 

facts as alleged in the Administrative Complaint. The investigative file was received 

into evidence and the Board finds that the uncontested facts adequately support the 

allegations. After a complete review of the record in this matter, including consideration 

of the Administrative Complaint, any written evidence or testimony, and any mitigating 



or aggravating circumstances, the Board makes the following findings and conclusions: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The allegations of fact set forth in the Administrative Complaint are 

approved, adopted, and incorporated herein by reference as the findings of fact by the 

Board. 

2. There is competent, substantial evidence to support the Board's findings 

and conclusions. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The conclusions of law alleged and set forth in the Administrative 

Complaint are approved and adopted and incorporated herein by reference as the 

conclusions of law of the Board. 

2. The violations set forth in the Administrative Complaint warrant 

disciplinary action by the Board. 

3. Based upon the Findings of Fact, the Board concludes that the licensee 

violated Section 456.072(1)(hh), Florida Statutes, and Section 465.01 6(1)(m), Florida 

Statutes. 

The Board is empowered by Sections 465.016(2) and 456.072(2), Florida 

Statutes, to impose a penalty against the licensee. Therefore, it is ORDERED that: 

Respondent's intern registration is hereby REVOKED. If Respondent re-enrolls 

in pharmacy school, Respondent shall be allowed to submit an application for intern 

registration. 



RULING ON MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS 

The Board reviewed Petitioner's Motion to Assess Costs. Respondent did not 

file any objections to Petitioner's Motion. Petitioner's Motion is granted and the Board 

imposes the costs associated with this case in the amount of two thousand one 

hundred ninety-two dollars and sixty-three cents ($2,192.63), to be paid within 

thirty-six (36) months of the filing date of this Final Order. 

COMPLIANCE ADDRESS 

Payment of the costs shall be made to: Department of Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, Florida 323 14-6320, attn: Board 

of Pharmacy Compliance Officer. 

This order shall become effective upon filing with the Clerk of the Department of 

Health. 

DONE AND ORDERED this 15 day of 

_______________, 

2008. 

BOARDOFPHAR ACY 

Rebecca R. Poston, R.Ph., Executive Director 
on behalf of Albert Garcia, R.Ph., CHAIR 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

A PARTY WHO IS ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY THIS FINAL ORDER IS 

ENTITLED TO JUDICIAL REVIEW PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.68, FLORIDA 

STATUTES. REVIEW PROCEEDINGS ARE GOVERNED BY THE FLORIDA RULES 

OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE. SUCH PROCEEDINGS ARE COMMENCED BY 

FILING ONE COPY OF A NOTICE OF APPEAL WITH THE AGENCY CLERK OF THE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND A SECOND COPY, ACCOMPANIED BY FILING 

FEES PRESCRIBED BY LAW, WITH THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FIRST 



DISTRICT, OR WITH THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE APPELLATE 

DISTRICT WHERE THE PARTY RESIDES. THE NOTICE OF APPEAL MUST BE 

FILED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF THE FILING DATE OF THE ORDER TO BE 

REVIEWED. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been 

furnished by U.S. Mail to: Arlen Harter, 1270 Boston Lane, Bradenton, Florida 34212; 

and by interoffice mail to Deborah BartholoW Loucks, Assistant Attorney General, 

Office of the Attorney General, PL-01, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050; 

and Billie Jo Owens, Assistant General Counsel, Department of Health, 4052 Bald 

Cypress Way, Bin #C-65, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265, on 

LQ , 2008. 

4 



(Page 28 of 41) 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

v. CASE NO. 2007-37871 

ARLEN T. HARTER, PSI, 

RESPONDENT. 

_________________________________________________/ 

ADMINISTRATIVE COM PLAINT 

Petitioner Department of Health (Department), by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent Arlen T. Harter, PSI, and in support 

thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed pharmacy intern within the state of Florida, having been issued 

license number PSI 15661. 

Health\Pharmacy\CASE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Narter, Arleji 



(Page 29 of 41) 

3. Respondent's address of record is 1270 Boston Lane, 

Bradenton, Florida 34202. 

4. The Florida Professionals Resource Network ("PRN"), is the 

impaired practitioners program for the Board of Pharmacy, pursuant to 

Section 456.076, Florida Statutes. PRN is an independent program that 

monitors the evaluation, care, and treatment of impaired healthcare 

professionals. PRN oversees random drug screens and provides for the 

exchange of information between treatment providers and the Department 

for the protection of the public. Raymond M. Pomm, M.D., a Board- 

certified psychiatrist and addictionologist, is the Medical Director of PRN 

and is charged with responsibility for the oversight of the program and 

documentation of compliance and noncompliance with PRN monitoring 

contracts. 

5. Respondent was a third year pharmacy student at the 

University of Florida in August 2005; he was initially registered as a 

Pharmacist Intern on or about November 7, 2002. 

6. On or about August 30, 2005, Respondent was brought to the 

Emergency Room at North Florida Regional Medical Center by the 
& Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\I-tarter, Arlen 2 



(Page 30 of 41) 

Gainesville Police Department presenting significant symptoms of 

withdrawal from alcohol including nausea, vomiting, and auditory 

hallucinations. 

7. Respondent was transferred to the Florida Recovery Center 

associated with Shands Hospital for treatment of alcohol related problems 

on or about September 6, 2005. 

8. —On- or-about September 5-- and- 6, 2005,- Respondent was 

evaluated by the medical physician serving as Co Medical Director of 

Florida Recovery Program and Inpatient Addiction Director;, a PRN and 

-evaluator who--diagnosed Respondent as follows: 

Axis I Clinical Disorders including major mental disorders and develoDmental and learning : 
Alcohol Dependence; 

Axis II Underlying Dervasive or oersona!fty 

conditions and ohvsical : 
Gastroesophageai Reflux Disease; 

IV Psycholociical and environmental factors contributing to the : 
Family and Professional Stressors; and 

Axis V Global Assessment of 

- 50. - 

J:\PSU\AlIjej & Number 2007\CA$E & Number 2007\Harter, Men 3 



(Page 31 of 41) 

The Global Assessment of Functioning is a numeric scale (0 through 100) 
used by mental health clinicians and doctors to rate the social, 
occupational, and psychological functioning of adults; and a 50-55 means 
that Respondent has moderate symptoms of or moderate difficulty in 
functioning in social, occupational, or school situations. 

9. On or about October 10, 2005, Respondent contacted PRN. 

10. On or about October 21, 2005, Respondent executed his first 

PRN contract, which provided for treatment and monitoring for five years. 

This contract required Respondent to: participate in a random urine and 

blood drug screen program; abstain completely from use of any 

medications, alcohol, and other mood altering substances, including over 

the counter medications unless ordered by his primary physician; select 

and name his primary physician and monitoring professional; notify PRN of 

any changes in physical or mental health, address, or employment; attend 

a self help group four times a week; attend a PRN monitored professional 

support group; notify PRN in the event of use of mood altering substances 

without a prescription from an approved physician; provide appropriate 

release forms for drug screen results, treatment center records, therapist 

reports, and other written and verbal information; withdrawfrom practice 

for evaluation at the request of PRN; involve his family in his support and 

recovery; comply with the contract any non-compliance of which could 

J:\PSU\M,ed & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Harter, Men 200-37871\AC020108.doc 4 



(Page 32 of 41) 

result in a report to the Department through PRN and withdrawal of PRN's 

advocacy; be courteous and cooperative in alt contacts with PRN staff and 

representatives; return messages left by PRN within 24 hours; and 

complete an intensive outpatient program. 

11. On or about January 20, 2006, Respondent was arrested in 

Alachua County, Florida for driving under the influence and for refusing to 

submit breathalyzer-test. -- 

12. On or about February 15, 2006, PRN was informed of 

Respondents relapse; and his contract was voided. 

driving 

under the influence and refusing to submit to a breathalyzer test. 

14. on or about June 9, 2006, Respondent executed his second 

PRN contract, which provided for treatment and monitoring for five years. 

This contract required Respondent to: participate in a random urine and 

blood drug screen program; abstain completely from use of any 

medications, alcohol, and other mood altering substances, including over 

the counter medications unless ordered by his primary physician; select 

and name his primary physician and monitoring professional; notify PRN of 

any changes in physical or mental health, address, or employment; attend 

J:\PSU\AlIied & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Harter, 200-37871\ACO2O1QS.doc 5 



(Page 33 of 41) 

a self help group three times a week; attend a PRN monitored professional 

support group; notify PRN in the event of use of mood altering substances 

without a prescription from an approved physician; provide appropriate 

release forms for drug screen results, treatment center records, therapist 

reports, and other written and verbal information; withdraw from practice 

for evaluation at the request of PRN; involve his family in his support and 

recovery; comply with the contract any non-compliance of which could 

result in a report to the Department through PRN and withdrawal of PRN's 

advocacy; be courteous and cooperative in all contacts with PRN staff and 

representatives; return messages left by PRN within 24 hours; and 

complete intensive outpatient treatment. 

15. on or about March 7, 2007, Respondent informed PRN that he 

had relapsed by drinking alcohol in January and in March 2007. He also 

informed PRN was inebriated in one of his pharmacy classes and was sent 

home. 

16. On or about March 12, 2007, Respondent was evaluated by a 

PRN and Department approved medical physician who diagnosed 

Respondent as follows: 

Axis I Clinical Disorders including major mental disorders and 
develoDmental and learning : 
J:\PSU\AlIied Health\Pllarrnacy\CASE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\I-iarter, Allen 200-37871\AC020108.doc 6 



(Page 34 of 41> 

Alcohol Dependence; 

Axis II pervasive or personality 

conditions 

Axis and environmental factors to 
the : 

License suspension, Drinking in school, Violation of PRN 

—- -- -— 

55. 

The Global Assessment of Functioning is a numeric scale (0 through 100) 
used by mental health clinicians and doctors to rate the social, 

a 50-55 means 
that Respondent has moderate symptoms of or moderate difficulty in 
functioning in social, occupational, or school situations. 

17. On or about March 14, 2007, Respondent's second PRN 

contract was voided due to the relapses earlier in 2007. 

18. On or about July 22, 2007, Respondent executed his third PRN 

contract, which provided for treatment and monitoring for five years. This 

contract required Respondent to: participate in a random urine and blood 

drug screen program; abstain completely from use of any medications, 

alcohol, and other mood altering substances, including over the counter 

medications unless ordered by his primary physician; select and name his 

& Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Karter, Men 200-37871\ACO2O1DS.doc 7 



(Page 35 of 41) 

primary physician and monitoring professional; notify PRN of any changes 

in physical or mental health, address, or employment; attend a self help 

group three times a week; attend a PRN monitored professional support 

group; notify PRN in the event of use of mood altering substances without 

a prescription from an approved physician; provide appropriate release 

forms for drug screen results, treatment center records, therapist reports, 

and other written and verbal information; withdraw from practice for 

evaluation at the request of PRN; involve his family in his support and 

recovery; comply with the contract any non-compliance of which could 

result in a report to the Department through PRN and withdrawal of PRN's 

advocacy; be courteous and cooperative in all contacts with PRN staff and 

representatives; return messages left by PRN within 24 hours; and 

complete aftercare at Manatee Glens. 

19. On or about October 26, 2007, Respondent was arrested in 

Alachua County, Florida for driving under the influence and for refusing to 

submit to a breathalyzer test. 

20. On or about October 29, 2007, when Respondent informed 

PRN of his recent relapse and arrest, he was told that he would need a 

new evaluation. 

J:\PSU\.Afliec) & Number & Number 2007\Harter, A,len ?OO-37871\ACO2O1OS.doc S 



(Page 36 of 41) 

21. PRN had no contact with Respondent after October 29, 2007; 

Respondent did not respond to PRN telephone calls; and Respondent did 

not attend his group meetings. 

22. on or about November 19, 2007, Respondent's third PRN 

contract was voided for non-compliance and inabflity to remain sober. 

23. on or about November 27, 2007, PRN reported to the 

that- --Respondent's--- PRN---contract was voided for non- 

compliance with the terms of that contract. 

24. Dr. P0mm stated that Respondent "is unable to practice, or 

an- Intern-with-reasonabje skifi-and safety." -- - 

COUNT ONE 

25. Petitioner reaHeges and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 24 

as if fully set forth here. 

26. Section 456.072(1)(hh), Florida Statutes (2007), prOvides that 

termination from a treatment program for impaired practitioners, which is 

overseen by an impaired practitioner consultant as described in Section 

456.076, for failure to comply, without good cause, with the terms of the 

monitoring or treatment contract entered into by the licensee or for not 

successfully completing any drug treatment-or alcohol treatment program 

Hea h\Pharm y\CA$E & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Ilarter, Arlen 9 



(Page 37 of 41) 

is grounds for disciplinary action by the Board. 

27. On or about November 19, 2007, Respondent's contract with 

PRN was terminated. 

28. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

456.072(1)(hh), Florida Statutes, by termination of his contract with PRN 

voided. 

29. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 24 

as if fully set forth here. 

(2007), provides that 

being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by 

reason of illness, use of drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of 

material or as a result of any mental or physical condition is grounds for 

disciplinary action by the Board. 

31. Respondent's history of alcohol abuse; his failure to appreciate 

and learn from the prior treatment, and monitoring; the significant 

likelihood of his continued alcohol use or abuse; and his noncompliance 

with the terms of his PRN contracts, demonstrate that he is unable to 

Heal & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\I-larter, Arlen 200-37871\ACJJZOIO8.doc 10 



practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety. 

32. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

464.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes, by being unable to practice pharmacy 

with reasonable skill and safety. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent oh probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education, and any other relief that the Board 

deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this day of , 2008. 

Ana M. Viamonte Ros, M.D., M.P.H. 
State Surgeon General 

i:\PSU\Alliecj & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\harter, Arlen 11 

(Page 38 of 41) 

is 

General Counsel 

PCP: 
PCP Members: 



(Page 39 of 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, on to any other discipline imposed. 

Ar/en T Hafte, PSI, 2007-37871 

Jo Owens 
General Counsel 

Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 0211958 
850.245.4640 
850.245.4682 FAX 

3:\PSU\Mied & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Ilarter, Arleri 12 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 2 of 3) 

10/30/2007 09:27 FAX 

v OLLJNTARY AGREEMENT TO WITHDRAW FROM PRACTICE 

The undersigned Licensee, cl&f license 

number I . hereby agrees to withdraw from his/bcr practice of 

_____________________________in 

the State of Florida and states: 

I. Licensee has agreed to voluntarily withdraw from his/her practice in the State of Florida. 

2. The withdrawal from practice will remain in effect until the vendor through whom this 

form was submitted notifies the Department of Health hi writing that the withdrawal may be rescinded, or 

until the Board of enters an order authorizing the 

undersigned to rescind the withdrawal. 

3. Respondent understands that this Agreement constitutes a legal obligation within the 

meaning of Section 456.072(l)(k), Florida Statutes. Respondent further understands that any violation of 

the terms of this Agreement by Respondent shall constitute sufficient probable cause for the issuance by 

Petitioner of an Emergency Suspension of Respondent's license to practice as a 

'FQrI in the State of Florida. 

4. Licensee, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing and having the opportunity 

to consult with counsel of his/her choosing, hereby agrees that upon his/her execution of this Agreement, it 

shall immediately be made accessible to the public. In addition, Licensee's ticensure status and, if 

applicable, profile with the Board of will reflect the withdrawal! 

restriction stated herein. 

DATED this of 200 '7 

Signature 

STATE OF_______________________ 

Countyof 

1 



(Page 3 of 3) 

10/30/2007 09:27 FAX - 

Before me, personally appeared I ' r whose 

identity is known to me by FL — (type of identification) 

and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. Sworn to and subscnbed by 

Licensee dayof 

N Public 

MyComrnissionExpires: t 

15,2010 

2 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


- - Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

______________ 

of all people in Flodda through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

September 19, 2013 

Clifton Webb 
8801 NW th Street 
Pembroke Pines, FL 33024 

RE: Pharmacy Examination Application 

Dear Mr. Webb: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, October 9, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. The meeting begins at 
1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.floridaspharmacy.gov/meeting-information/upcoming-meetings/. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

FlorWa Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 FAX 8501413-6982 YOUTUBE: tldoh 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Page 1 of 13) 

2ZO1 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

P.O. Box 6320 e Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

Phone: (850) 245-4292 

www.doh .state.fl .us/mqa/PharmacY 

ITEM #2 _PHARMACIST EXAMINATION APPLICATION 

FOR U.S. AND PUERTO RICO GRADUATES 

FEE: $295.00 

State 

1L 
State 

iome 

E-mail address 

- 

birth 
U.S. 

2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the touowing information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does affect our carididac for licensure. 

been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the change(s) below. Use a 

separate sheet, if . 
Yes 

_______ 

No I 
Name 

4. Name of University, College or School of Pharmacy attended 

5. Date of graduation 6. Type of degree earned 7. Have you ever 
intern in Florida? 

Yes / 
Intern License num 

been 

No 

ber: P 

licensed 

5J 

as 

3 

an 

DH-MQA 101, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.203, F.A.C. 

Page 2 of 9 

/ 
295.00 

Type: F ID: 44069 

BT; 3002424 

VL: 913007267 

Please print or type 

First name 

n 



(Page 4 of 13) 

9. Did you transfer your NAPLEX® score to Florida 
within the past three (3) years? 

Yes Date of exam: 
No 

10. Would you be willing to provide health services in special needs shelters or to help staff disaster 

medical assistance teams during times of emergency or major ? 
Yes I No 

11. Have you ever applied to take the Florida Pharmacist Examination? If yes, please indicate the . 
Yes No Date 

12. List all experience earned as an intern, If you have been a registered pharmacist for at least one ) 
year, list only your pharmacist experience. If you graduated after January 1, 2001 with a Pharm.D. 

Degree, it is not necessary to complete this section. Note: you must submit one (1) Internship or Work 

Experience Form - Form B (Item #4) for each employer listed . Use a separate sheet, if 
necessary. 

Dates Employer Location 
Intern or pharmacy 

. experience 
Total hours 

13. List all state(s) in which you have held currently hold a pharmacist license. Note: you must 

submit one (1) Licensure Verification Form (Item #5) for each state listed . Use a separate sheet, 

if . 
State License number I Date issued 

N)h 

14. Special testing accommodations — please indicate if you require special testing accommodations due to 

a disability, or if you have a religious conflict with the scheduled examination date. If yes, complete the 

Application for Candidates Requesting Special Testing Accommodations in Accordance with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act," form DH-MQA 4000, 6/08. which may be downloaded from the 

Department's website at http Ilwww.d oh.state.fI us/mga/exam/spectest.htm, or you may contact 

Testing Services by phone at (850) 245-4252 for detailed information and an . All requests 

must be in writing and include supporting documents. 

Yes No 

15. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendere, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other minor traffic offense? 
Yes No .1 
(You must include all misdemeanors and telonies, even it adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record ot conviction. 

Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic offense br the purposes ob this question.) 

DH-MQA 101. 09/09 Page 3 of 9 
Rule 64B16-26203, F.A.C. 

8. Are you planning to transfer your NAPLE)CW 

score to Florida? If yes, please indicate 
approximate date of transfer. 

Yes 
No 

Date of transfer: 



(Page 6 of 13) 

LI 

20. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 
in this state or any other state? 

Yes No 

21. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No I 
22. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 
817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 
control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If no, go to question ) 
Yes No 

24. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 
date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent ? 
Yes No 

24a. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6) (a), Florida . 
Yes No 

24b. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 
it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No 
24c. If "yes" to 23, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No 
25. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395-1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid ? 
Yes No 
25a. If "yes" to 25, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 
and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes No______ 

26. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 27.) 

DH-MQA 101, 09/09 Page 5 of 9 
Rule 64B16-26.203, F.A.C. 



(rage 7 of 13) 

Yes No I 
27. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

28. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 28a and 28b.) 

Yes No 1' 
28a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

28b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

29. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? 

Yes________ No (If yes, provide supporting documentation) 
30. If "yes" to any of the questions 23 through 29 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled in 
an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes No 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 16-29, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit 
a certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all if applicable. 

Section 456.013(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place between the initial filing of the application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any 
investigations they deem appropriate and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, 
institution, association, board or any municipal, county, state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I 

understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a pharmacist's license may be revoked or 
suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other thing, in connection witM an application for a license or permit, as set forth in section 456.015(2)(a), ES. 

Signature / Date 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

DH-MQA 101, 09/09 Page 6 of 9 
Rule 64B16-26.203, F.A.C. 



(Page 1 of 1) 

:1 

HEALTh 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 

Phone: (850) 245-4292w www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #3- CERTIFICATE OF PHARMACY EDUCATION (FORM A) 

Please print or type legibly. 
Part . — To be completed by applicant and forwarded to the College of Pharmacy for completion of 
Part II below. 
Last name First name Middle name 
Webb, Jr. Clifton George 
Maiden name/surname Date of graduation 

May 4, 2013 
Mailing address City State Zip 
8801 N.W. 7th Street Pembroke Pines FL 33024 

Part II. — To be completed by College of Pharmacy Dean 
Name of School/College of Pharmacy 

Florida A&M University/College of Pharmacy and Pharmaceutical Sciences 
Mailing address City State Zip 
1415 S. Martin Luther King, Jr., Boulevard Tallahassee FL 32307 

Type of degree awarded Date degree awarded Dates of attendance 

From: 08/25/08 Doctor of Pharmacy May 4, 2013 To: 05/03/13 

The information recorded above is true and correct according to the official records of this institution. 
Failure to include the school seal may result in a delay in processing the applicant's application. 

Michael D. Thompson. PharmD 
Print Name 

Dean, College of Pharmacy 
Title 

Signature 'I 

May 13, 2013 
Date 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA 101, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.203, F.A.C. 

Page 7 of 9 
MAY 

Honda Boaro of Pharmacy 

(SCHOOL 
SEAL) 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 8 of 13> 

STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

NAME 

PROVIDER INFORMATION 

Florida A&M University 
College of Pharmacy and Pharmaceutical Sciences 

Authorized Signature 
Angela M. Thornton 

Sponsored: Florida A&M University College of Pharmacy and Pharmaceutical Sciences 
Knowledge-based CPE activity 
CE Broker Tracking Number: 20-353265 

Name Clifton Webb. Jr. 

MEDICATION ERRORS 05/01/2013 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION 

Address 8801 NW 7th Street 

City, State, Zip Pembroke Pines, FL 33024 

License No. (s) 

Total Credit Issued 0.2 CEUS 

OR 2 Contact Hours 

NABP DOB 

May 1, 2013 

Date 





 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 ot 49) 

FLORIDA BOARD OF P1 

P.O. Box 6320 • Tallahas 
Phone: (850) 245-4292 
www.doh.state.fl.uslmqafl 

L 
ITEM #2- PHARMACIST ENDORSEMENT APPLICATION 

FEE: $29500 

Please print or tvoe Ieaiblv. 

1. Biographical Data 
Middle Name Last Name First Name 

Street Address (ML — Mailing Address) City State Zip 

0 7.- 7vt1 
Work Address (PL — Practice Location) City State Zip 

Home Phone Number Business Phone Number E-Mail Address 

Z- 
Date of Birth Place of Birth 

j'lX 
2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 

SEX: Male 0 Female 
RACE: D Black OHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 

3. Have you ever changed your name through mamage or through action of a court or have you ever 

been known by any other name? if yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the changes below. Use a 

separate sheeL if 
Yes No )( 
NAME DATE 

4. Name of university, college or school of pharmacy attended: 

5. Date Of Graduation 6. Type Of Degree Earned 7. Have you ever been licensed as an 
intern in Florida? 

. 

/97g .) 
rz<. L)\) Yes____ No_____ 

Intern License Number 

100,02/09 Page 2 of 6 

Rule 64B16-26205 FAG. 

01/29/2013 

ID: 42822 

81: 3013232 

VL: 912040318 

IiIEALTHI 

295.00 
Type: F 



(Page 3 of 49) 

8. Plea se indicate the date you successfully completed the NAPLEX examination. 

Date 30,1 

9. Would you be willing to provide health services in special needs shelters or to help staff disaster 
medical assistance teams during times of emergency or major ? 
Yes X No 

10. Method of application - Please select one of the methods of application listed below; you must submit 

proof that the requirement you choose has been . 
A. Two years of active practice within two (2) of the last five (5) years. 

B. Successful completion of an internship within the immediately preceding two (2) years. 

PLEASE NOTE: If you have been licensed in another state in excess of 2 years from the date of your 
application you must choose A and have completed 30 hours of continuing education in the previous two (2) 

calendar years. If you choose your internship date will be determined by the Board based on your 
graduation date, unless the state board of pharmacy where your hours were earned submits the certification of 

intern hours earned in that state within the orecedina two (2) years. 
11. Ust two years work experience if you are applying under I OA Note: you must submit one (1) 

Internship or Work Experience Form — Form B (Item #4) for each employer listed below. Use a 

separate sheaf, it necessary. List internship experience if are applying under lOB. 
Dates Employer 

. 

Location Intern Or Pharmacy 
Experience 

Total Hours 

I . ' 
12. Ust all jurisdictions in which you have been licensed as a pharmacist. Note: you must submit one 

(1) Ucensure "r each listed below. Use a sezarate sheet if . - — - 

State or U.S. Jurisdiction Ucense Number Date Issued 

330 

13. Special Testing Accommodations — please indicate if you require special testing accommodations due 

to a disability, or if you have a religious conflict with the scheduled examination date. If yes, complete the 
Request for an Application for Testing Accommodations (item #6) and submit it to Testing Services. 
You may also contact Testing Services by telephone 850) 245.4252 for detailed information and an 

applicaijoit All requests must be made in writing and include supporting . 
Yes No 

14. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendre, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 
Yes No ( 
(You must indude all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjuthcation was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record 

of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 
Rule 64B16-26.205, FAC. 

Page 3 of 6 



(Page 5 of 49) 

19. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 

in this state or any other state or U.S. jurisdiction? 

Yes < No 

20. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 

jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No X ' 
- w - 

21. Are you presently being investigated or us any disciplinary action pending a thst 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 

817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 

control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state orjunsdiction? (If no, do riot answer 23 ) 
Yes No 

23. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 

the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes No 

23a. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 

felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida ) 
Yes No 

23b. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6Ha), Florida Statutes, has 

it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes No 

23c. if "yes" to 22, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No______ 

24. Have you been convicted of, or entered a of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or42 U.S.C. ss. 

1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes______ No______ 

24a. If "yes" to 24, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 

and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ended? 

Yes No_____ 

L 

DH-MQA 100,02109 Page 5 of 6 

Rule 64B16-26.205, FA.C. 



(Page £ of 49) 

25. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 25b.) 

Yes No 

25b. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

26. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 26a and 26b.) 
Yes No X 
26a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 
for the most recent frveyears? 

Yes No 

26b. Did the termination occur at least 2Oyears prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

26. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide official 
documentation) 

Yes______ No < 
27. II "yes" to any of the questions 22 through 26 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled 
in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes______ No 

API of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 16-26, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit 
a certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or 
all if applicable. 

Section 456.013(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change 
in any arcurmtances or changes stated in the applicatien which takes place between the initial tiling of the application and 
the final grant or denial of the license and which night affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the 
basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations they deem appropriate 
and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have 
or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board or any municipal, county, 
state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a 

pharmacist's license may be revoked or suspended for presenting any fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, 
diploma, or other document, in cennedion with an application for a license or pemit, as set forth in sedion 456.015(2)(a), 
F 

Applicant Sighature Date 
NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

02/09 Page6of6 
Rule 64816-26.205, FAG. 



(2age 1 or 1) 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 
Phone: (850) 245-4292 www.doh.state.fiuslmqa/pharmaCy 

ITEM #3-CERTIFiCATE OF PHARMACY EDUCATION (FORM A) 

Part . To be completed by applicant and forwarded to the Coflege of Pharmacy for completion of 
Part U below. 
Last Name First Name Middle Name 

Maiden NamelSurname Date of Graduation 

Mailing Address City . 
State Zip 

I(OCZ. 

Part . — To be completed by an official of the university 
Name of llege of Pharmacy 

Ferns State University 
Mailing Address City state zip 

220 Ferris Drive -. Big Rapids Ml 49307 

Type of Degree Awarded Date Degree Awarded Dates of Attendance 

Bachelor of Science in Pharmacy November 21, 1977 
From 09 j06 j1973 

1o 

The information recorded above is tsue and correct according to the official records of this institution. 
Failure to indude the school seal may result in a delay in processin the applica 's application. 

Stephen W. Durst 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: 

100,02/09 
Rule 64B16-26.205, FAC. 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PRARMACT 
4052 

323993254 

Page 1 of I 

Oard of 
FEB :i :i RECV 

Please pnnt or type . 

Print Name Signatu(e 

Dean February 5, 2013 

Title Date 

(SCHOOL 
SEAL) 



(Page 1 of 1) 

oardOf MDBO95 
'7 RECU 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin C-04 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 
Phone: (050) 245-4292 www.doh.stateftus/mqalpharmacy 

ITEM #4-. INTERNSHIt' OR WORK EXPERIENCE FORM (FORM B) 

Please print or type legibly. 

I HEREBY APPLY FOR iNTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE CREDIT AS OUTLINED BELOW UNDER 
THE SUPERVISION OF: 

Su rvising Pharmacist's Name License Number 

edRo 
Pharmacy Name Permit Number 

ixr 
Street Address City State Zip 

Phone Number 4. Dates of Experience 

q - -2424 Front To: 

5. Average number of hours per week 6. Total hours of experience 

2.4 bias 

A: 
Applicant's Signature Date 

This report is a correct statement of fact. The above information was taken from the records of the above 
e Board of Pharmacy. named for inspection by th 

Date 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFiCE: 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA PHi 00, 02/09 
Rule 64816-26205, F.A.C. 

Page 1 of 1 

HEALT 

1. Biographical information 
Applicant Name lntemlPharmacist License Number Phone Number 

1X' / 
Street Address City State Zip 

Tfl-L 
2. Have you submitted an application for the Florida Pharmacist Examination? If yes, please indicate 
date. 

Yes ' No_______ Date i 

3. Pharmacy information 

No more than SO hours per week if you are a student and no more than 60 after graduation is ) 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


OF 

11v '3 
Continuing Education Network, Inc. 
P0 Box 1516 
Martinez,CA 94553 
1-800-798-3353 

The Rx Consultant is a publication of Continuing 
Education Network, Inc. CE hours by 
CEN, Inc. (in The Rx Consultant) meet the ANCC 
critena for formally approved continuing education 
hours. 

Continuing Education Network, 
Inc. is accredited by the 
Accreditation Council for 
Pharmacy Education as a 
of continuing pharmacy education 

RODNEY VUURENS 
1602 PRESTON TRL 

HARLINGEN TX 78552 

License ID: 

Patient Safety: Identifying Adverse litle: 
Drug Reactions 

Release 
12101/11 

Date: 

428-0000-11-11 1-H05-P 

13118 

Type of 
Knowledge-based 

Home Paae Take Another Test 

1/1 

ACPE 
Program: 

CA BRN: 

Credits Earned: .20 CEU 

2.0 Contact Hours 

CE Category: Pharmacology 

Date Completed: 1/21/13 

Date Issued: 1/21/13 

Certificate Number. 1093889 

Authorized by: Terry M. Baker 



STATEMENT OF CONTINUING EDUCATION PARTIcIPATION 

PROVIDER 

The U,ziversityofTexasatAusthz 

This written statement confirms that the participant noted below has fulfilled all the requirements 
necessary for receiving the documented CEU(s) or contact hour(s) for the specified accredit-ed 
program. Should there be a discrepancy in the report, it is the responsibility of the partici- 
pant to make the correction and to notify The University of Texas at Austin College of Pharmac 
of the same. It is also the participant's responsibility to check with the appropriate state board(s 
of pharmacy in the event there is a concern about the acceptability of a for CPE credit. 

PROGRAM INFORMATION: 59th Pharmacy Practice Seminar (Knowledge) 

TITLE Contact 
ACPE UNIV. PROG. NO. Date CELls Hours 

0067—0000—11—030—L05—P Medication Interest Nodal 
09/17/2011 0.125 1.25 

0067—0000—ll—03l—L01—P Alzheimer's vs. Dementia 
09/17/2011 0.15 1.50 

0067—0000—ll—032—L01—P Advances in ADHD 

09/17/2011 0.10 1.00 

0067—0000--ll—033—L01—P Dermatology: 13 Going on 40 and Beyond 

09/17/2011 0.10 1.00 

0067—0000—1l—034—L0l—P Counseling Cancer Patient in the Retail Setting 

09/17/2011 0.15 1.50 

0067—0000—11—035—L04—P Hew Drug Update 
09/17/2011 0.15 1.50 

0067—0000—1l—036—L04—P *flealthcare Reform 
09/18/2011 0.10 1.00 

0067—0000—11—037—L04—P ellealth: Communications in the Digital Age 

09/17/2011 0.10 1.00 

*Texas Pharmacy Law Update 
09/18/2011 0.10 1.00 

0067—0000—11—039—L03—P Texas Pharmacy Law Update Question/Answer 

09/18/2011 0.05 0.50 

0067—0000--ll—040—L01—P *Update on Substance Abuse 
09/18/2011 0.10 1.00 

0067—0000—11—041—L01—P Clinical 101: Hypertension — - -—- -- - 

09/18/2011 0.15 1.50 
0067—000—l1—042—L01—P Diabetes: Empowering the Patient 

09/18/2011 1.25 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION Total credits issued: 1.50 CELls 
or 15.00 Contact Hours 

Name: Rodney Vuurens 

Address: 
1602 Preston Trail 
Harlingen, TX 

I 

I The University of Texas at Avistin College of Authorized 
Pharmacy is accredited by the Aceroditation Signature 09/ 11 
Council for Pharmacy Education as a Dated 

® provider of continuing pharmacy education. 



, Os qy) 

11/12111 

POWER=PAK C.E: 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCRED1TO R INFORt4ATIO N PROGRAM INFORMATION 
NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate lthcare Medication Disposal: Current Issues 
Education, LLC and Legal Considerations for 

Pharmacists 

ACPE ID. EXAM SUBMITTED ON: 

0430-0000-11.028-H03.P 1111212011 

EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

1111212011 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 
NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Rodney Vuurens 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 5-B, 20-0 

1602 Preston Trail STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1111212011 

CflY, STATE, ZIP: 

Harlingen, Texas 78552 7 

Susanne Batesko, RN. BSN 

Ill 



2/11/2011 Certificate 

CE: 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 
NAME: FLE: 

Postgraduate Heatthcare Prebiolics: Consumers and 
Education, LLC Health Care Professionals About an 

Emerging Health Concept 

ACPE 1.0. EXAM SUBMITTED ON: 

0430-0000-1O-037-HO1-P 2111/2011 

EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

2/11/2011 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDTT INFORMATION 
NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Rodney K Vuurens 0.20 CEIJ or 2.00 Credit Hours 
ADDRESS: QUESTiONS MISSED: 

1602 Trail STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 2111/2011 

CITY, STATE, ZIP: 
STATEMENT 

Harlungen, tx 78552 

Susanne Batnekp. RN. BSN 

Back to Home 

powerpakcom/JE/.../Certificate.asp 1/1 



tray _s (_i&_ 

2/11/2011 Certificate 

CE. 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 

NAME: TrftE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Head Lice: An Update on Diagnosis & 
Education, LLC Treatment 

ACPE I.D. EXAM SUBMIUED ON: 

0430-0000-10-026-H01-P /2011 
EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

2/1112011 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFO RMATIO N 

NAME: CREDffS EARNED: 

- Rodney K Vuurens 0.20 CEU or 2.00 Credit Hours 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 

1602 Preston Trail STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 2/1112011 

CIW, STATE, ZIP: 
ORIGINAL STATEMENT 

Harhngen, tx 78552 

Susanne Batesko, RN, 

Back to Home 

powerpak.com/JE/. ../Certificate.asp 1/1 



.LL Ut 

2/28(12 Certificate 

CE 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING P1-4ARMACY EDUCATI ON CREDIT 

ACCREDUED PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE: 

Healthcare Update on Federal Controlled 

Education, LLC Responsibilities 

ACPELJAN RELEASE DATE: 

000-11.031-H03-P 111112011 

ACTiVItY TYPE DATE: 

Knowledge 1113012013 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDflS EARNED: 

Rodney Vuurens 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 9-D, 18-A 

1602 Trail STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 2(2812012 

CITY. STATE. ZIP: 

Harlingen, Texas 78552 

Su5anne Batesilo, RN. 18S1f 

www.powerpak.com/certflicat& 
1,1 



Ot 

POWER-PAK C.E' 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 
NAME: TITLE: 

lthcare and Management of Leg 
Education, LLC Cramps: A Ilomeopathic Approach 

ACPE ID. EXALM SUBMITTED ON: .P 1O!7/2011 

EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

10/7/2011 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFO RMATION 
NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Rodney Vuurens 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 12-B, 19-C, 20-A 

1602 Preston Trail STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 10/712011 

GuY, STATE, ZiP: 

Harlingen, Texas 78552 1 

2 'no 
Susanne RN. BSN 



3/1/2011 Certificate 

CE. 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 
NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Common Cold, Influenza, and the 
Education, LLC Pharmacist Rational Self-Care 

Recommendations 
ACPE l.a EMM SUBMITFED ON: -P 2/21/2011 

EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

212112011 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 
NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Rodney K Vuurens 0.20 CEU or 2.00 Credit Hours 
ADDRESS: QUESTiONS MISSED: 3-0 

1602 Preston Trail STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 311/2011 

CItY, STATE, ZIP: 
ORIGINAL STATEMENT Harlingen, lx 78552 

Sueanne BSN 

Back to Home 

powerpak.com/JE/...fCer-tfficate.asp 1/1 



13 01 

2/11/2011 Certificate 

CE. 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 
NAME: 1TTL.E: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Prescnption Errors and Their Legal 
Education, LLC Consequences: Best Practices for 

Prevention 
ACPE I.D. EXAM SUBMITTED ON: -P 2111/2011 

EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

211112011 

PARTICIPANT INFO RMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 
NAME: EARNED: 

Rodney K Vuurens 0.20 CEU or 2.00 Credit Hours 
ADDRESS: QUES11ONS MISSED: 

1602 Preston Trail STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 2111/2011 

CFTY, STATE, ZIP: 
DUPLICATE STATEMENT Harlingen, 78552 

Susanne RN. BSN 

Back to Home 

powerpak.com/JE/...fCertlficate.asp 



(Page 16 of 49) 

2/11/2011 Certificate 

CE. 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 
NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Managing Joint Pain and Associated 
Education, LLC Conditions 

ACPE I.D. EXAM SUBMITTED ON: 

0430-0000-10-023-HOl -P 2/1112011 

EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

2/1112011 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 
NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Rodney K Vuurens 0.20 CEU or 2.00 Credit Hours 

ADDRESS: QUES11ONS MISSED: 

1602 Preston Trail STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 211112011 

CITY, STATE, ZIP: 
ORIGINAL STATEMENT 

Harlingen, x 78552 

Susanne Hatesks. RN. BSN 

Back to Home 

powerpak.com/JE/.../Certificate.asp 1/1 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flodda Through integrated 
state, county & community efforts 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Mark Alan Kemp 
135 E Prairie Ave 
Decatur, IL 62523 

September 18, 2013 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, October 9, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. The meeting begins at 
1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will foHow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.floridaspharmacy.gov/meeting-information/upcoming-meetings/. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

James Cumbie 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 'Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FlorldasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

HEALtH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

RE: Application for Licensure by Endorsement 

Dear Mr. Kemp: 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html




4 or 55) 

8. Please indicate the date you successfully completed the NAPLEX . 
Date 

9. Would you be willing to provide health services in special needs shelters or to help staff disaster 
medical assistance teams during times of emergency or major disasters? 

Yes No________ 

10. Method of application - Please select one of the methods of application listed below; you must submit 
proof that the requirement you choose has been met. 

X A. Two years of active practice within two (2) of the last five (5) years. 

B. Successful completion of an internship within the immediately preceding two (2) years. 

PLEASE NOTE: If you have been licensed in another state in excess of 2 years from the date of your 
application you must choose A and have completed 30 hours of continuing education in the previous two (2) 
calendar years. If you choose "B" your internship date will be determined by the Board based on your 
graduation date, unless the state board of pharmacy where your hours were earned submits the certification of 
intern hours earned in that state within the preceding two (2) years 
11. List two years work experience if you are applying under IOA Note: you must submit one (1) 
Internship or Work Experience Form — Form B (Item #4) for each employer listed . Use a 
separate sheet, if necessary. List internship experience if you are applying under lOB. 
Dates Employer Location Intern Or Pharmacy 

Experience 
Total Hours 

12. List all jurisdictions in which you have been licensed as a pharmacist. Note: you must submit one 
tii i..icensure verification Fnrm (item fnr listed below Use a seoarate sheet, if necessary 
State or U.S. Jurisdiction License Number Date Issued 

13. Special Testing Accommodations — please indicate if you require special testing accommodations due 
to a disability, or if you have a religious conflict with the scheduled examination date. If yes, complete the 
Request for an Application for Testing Accommodations (item #6) and submit it to Testing Services. 
You may also contact Testing Services by telephone (850) 245-4252 for detailed information and an 
application. All requests must be made in writing and include supportincj documents. 

Yes No 

14. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendre, 0mb contest, to a 
crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 3 of 6 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

Yes No 
(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record 
of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving white impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 



(Page 6 of 66> 

19. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 
in this state or any other state or U.S. jurisdiction? 

Yes ( No 

20. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No P( 

21. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 
817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 
control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If no, do not answer 23 ) 
Yes No 

23. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 
the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes No 

23a. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes No A 

23b. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 
it been more than 5 years from the date of the pica, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes No 

23c. If "yes" to 23, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No ( 
24. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes______ No______ 

24a. If "yes" to 24, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 
and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ended? 

Yes No 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 5 of 6 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 



(Page 7 of 66) 

25. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 25b.) 

Yes No £k 

25b. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

26. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 26a and 26b.) 
Yes No 
26a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 
for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

26b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No k 

26. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide official 
documentation) 

Yes______ No 

27. If "yes" to any of the questions 22 through 26 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled 
in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes_____ No . 
All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 16-26, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit 
a certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or 
all if applicable. 

Section 456.01 3(1)(a), F.S.. requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change 
in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place between the initial filing of the application and 
the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the 
basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations they deem appropriate 
and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have 
or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board or any municipal, county, 
state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a 
pharmacist's license may be revoked or suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, 
diploma, or other in connection with an application for a license or permit, as set forth in section 456.015(2)(a), 
F.S. 

Applicant S Date 
'NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 6 of 6 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 



(Page 1 of 1) 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 
Phone: (850) 245-4292 • www.doh .state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #3- CERTIFICATE OF PHARMACY EDUCATION (FORM A) 

Please print or type legibly. 
Part . — To be completed by applicant and forwarded to the College of Pharmacy for completion of 
Part II below. 
Last Name First Name Middle Name 

Maiden NamelSurriame 'Date Graduation 

Mailing Address City State Zip 

3 E (a2 3 

Part II. — To be completed by an official of the university 
Name oF School/College of Phurmecy . 

hf aJ- 
Mailing A&lress City State Zip 

Lrt_ 
Type of Degree Awarded Date Awarded Dates of Aftendance 

I / 

To: 

The information recorded above is true and correct according to the official records of this institution. 
Failure to include the school seal may result in a delay in processing the applicant's application. 

Signature (I - 

/0, 
Date 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 1 of 1 

Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

JUN 1 4 2013 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

FLORIDA OF 

HEALT 

Print Name 

Title 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

(SCHOOL 
SEAL) 

RECEIVED 



(Page 1. of 2) 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 
Phone: (850) 245-4292 • www.doh .state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #4-INTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE FORM (FORM B) 

Please orint or type legibly. 

I HEREBY APPLY FOR INTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE CREDIT AS OUTLINED BELOW UNDER 
THE SUPERVISION OF: 

Supervising Pharmacist's Name License Number 
L - 

Pharmacy Name Permit Number 
zic dIA 

Street AdYfress City State Zip ' 2r 
Phone Number 

IL 
4. Dates of Experience 

2i7- From: To: II 
5. Average number of hours per week 6. Total hours of experience 

Applicants Date 

This report is a correct statement of fact. The above information was taken from the records of the above 
e Board of Pharmacy. for inspection by th 

Date 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 
PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA PH 100, 02/09 Page 1 of 1 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

FLORIDA OF 

HEALT 

1. Biographical information 
Applicant Name Intern/Pharmacist License Number Phone Number 

Street Address City State Zip 
(3c .11 
2. Have you submitted an application for the Florida Pharmacist Examination? If yes, please indicate 
date. 

Yes —_______ No ( Date. 

3. Pharmacy information 

No more than 50 hours per week if you are a student and no more than 60 after graduation is ) 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html




 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


page 1 of 26) 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

P.O. Box 6320 • Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

Phone: (850) 245-4292 

/ 
ID: 

BT: 3017529 

VL: 9120520B4 

295.00 
TYPE: F 

2. Equal OpportunitY Data — We are required to ask the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines Ofl Employee Selection procedure (1978) 

(August 25, 1978). The information IS gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not in an wa affect our candidac for licensure. 

SEX OF e 

RACE: ii Caucasian 0 Black DHis anic 0 Asian 0 Native AmeriCan 0 Other 

3. Have you ever changed your name through marriage or through action of a court or have you ever 

been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the changes below. Use a 

if 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

Page 2 of 6 

ITEM #2— PHARMACIST ENDORSEMENT APPLICATION 

FEE: $295.00 

or 

Home Phone Number 

Date of 

7. Have you ever been licensed as an 

intern in Florida? 

Yes 

Intern License Number: 



(Page 3 of 26> 

8. Please indicate the date you successfully completed the NAPLEX . 
Date 

9. Would you be willing to provide health services in special needs shelters or to help staff disaster 
medical assistance teams during times of emergency or major ? 
Yes No 

10. Method of application - Please select one of the methods of application listed below; you must submit 

proof that the requirement you choose has been met. 

A. Two years of active practice within two (2) of the last five (5) years. 

B. Successful completion of an internship within the immediately preceding two (2) years. 

PLEASE NOTE: If you have been licensed in another state in excess of 2 years from the date of your 

application you must choose A and have completed 30 hours of continuing education in the previous two (2) 

calendar years. If you choose "B" your internship date will be determined by the Board based on your 
graduation date, unless the state board of pharmacy where your hours were earned submits the certification of 

intern hours earned in that state within the precedina two (2) years. 

11. List two years work experience if you are applying under I OA Note: you must submit one (1 

Internship or Work Experience Form — Form B (Item #4) for each employer listed below. Use a 

separate sheet. if necessary. List internship experience if you are applying under lOB. 

Dates Employer Location Intern Or Pharmacy 
Experience 

Total Hours 

12. List all jurisdictions in which you have been licensed as a pharmacist. Note: you must submit one 

Licensure Form I fnr each listed below. Use a senarate sheet. if . 
State or U.S . Jurisdiction License Number Date Issued rk 
13. Special Testing Accommodations — please indicate if you require special testing accommodations due 

to a disability, or if you have a religious conflict with the scheduled examination date. If yes. complete the 

Request for an Application for Testing Accommodations (item #6) and submit it to Testing Services. 

You may also contact Testing Services by telephone (850) 245.4252 for detailed information and an 

application. All requests must be made in writing and include supporting . 
Yes No 

14. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendre, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 
Yes No 
(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record 

of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 
Rule 64816-26.205, F.A.C. 

Page 3 of 6 



(Page 5 of 26) 

119. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 
in this state or any other state or U.S. jurisdiction? 

Yes No X 
20. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No )( 
21. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 
817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 
control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If no, do not answer 23 ) 
Yes No ( 
23. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 
the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes No 

23a. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 

felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes No 

23b. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 

it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No 

23c. If "yes" to 22, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes______ No______ 

24. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or42 U.S.C. ss. 

1395-1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes___ No)( 
24a. If "yes" to 24, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 

and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes No______ 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 5 of 6 

Rule 64B16-26.205, FAG. 



(Page 6 of 26) 

25. 
409 

Have 
.913, 

you 
Flori 

ever been terminated for 
da Statutes? (If no, do no 

cause 
t answ 

from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
er 25b.) 

Yes No )( 

25b. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes_______ No 

26. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 26a and 26b.) 
Yes No 
26a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 
for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

26b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

26. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide official 
documentation) 

Yes______ NoX 
27. If "yes" to any of the questions 22 through 26 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled 
in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes______ No 

Section 456.013(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change 

in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place between the initial filing of the application and 

the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the 

basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations they deem appropriate 

and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have 

or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board or any municipal, county, 

state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a 

armacist's license may be revoked or suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, 
with an application for a license or rmit, as set forth in section 456.01 5(2)(a), 

Applicant Signature Date 
NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

Page 6 of 6 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 16-26, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit 
a certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or 
all if applicable. 



(E'age 1 of 1) 

I FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 
Phone: (850) 245-4292 www.doh.stateiiuslmqa/pharmacy 

ITEM - CERTIFICATE OF PHARMACY EDUCATION (FORM A) 

Please print or type legibly. 
Part . — To be completed by applicant and forwarded to the College of Pharmacy for completion of 
Part II below. 
Last name First name ddle name I Mi 

I D 
Date of graduation Maiden namelsurname 

I 

Mailing address City I State I Zip 

I IV'9 I 

Part I. — To be completed by College of Pharmacy Dean 
Name of SchoolfCollege of Pharmacy 

Mlbany College of Pharmacy 

. 

d Health ,addre 
I uo Avc Albany. NY 

Type of degree awarded Date degree awarded 

State 

Dates of attendance 

The information recorded above is true and correct according to the official records of this institution. 
Failure to include the school seal may result in a delay in rocessing the applicant's application. 

- 

- 
Tide Date 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: /1 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY I 

BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA-PHIOI, 7108 Page 1 of I 
Rule 64B16-26.203, FAG. 



(Page 7 of 26> 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 

Phone: (850) 245-4292 • www.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #4- INTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE FORM (FORM B) 

Please print or type Ieqiblv. 

I HEREBY APPLY FOR INTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE CREDIT AS OUTLINED BELOW UNDER 
THE SUPERVISION OF: 

Signature 

This report is a correct statement of fact. The above information was taken from the records of the above 
e nd are available for inspection by the Board of Pharmacy. 

Preceptor/Sàpervisor's Signature Date 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA PH100, 02/09 Page 1 of 1 

Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

1. Biographical information 
Applicant N Intern/Pharmacist License Number Phone Number 

Street Address City State Zip 

2. Have you submitted an application for the Florida Pharmacist Examination? If yes, please indicate 
date. 

Yes No )( Date 

3. Pharmacy information 
Supervising Phar t's Name 

Pharmacy'Name 

License Number 

DLI 
Permit Number 

Street Address ( City State Zip 

Z0co3 

Phone Number 
icj'f 

4. Dates of Exrjerience 

- From: To: - 
5. Average number of hours per week 6. Total hours of experience - 

than 50 hours per week if you are a student and no more than 60 after graduation is ) 
Date 

U I 

I I 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 1) 

H 

2 
•0 
0 

IS — 

0. 

— 

0 0. 

'I 
is — 

a. ° .2 
— U, a 

0. 
a, 

- 
a 
a, 

5 

U, 

2 

U' 

o .c . 0 
.0 
•0 0. 

E 

o 0._ 
I- 

9 0. U'X Un _ 
C 0 
U UZ 
U 0 

2.2 
C U' 
— — 

0 

Richard J Caron Foundation 
P0 Box 150 
Wernersville, PA 19565.0150 

Criteria: Darren Palmer; 04/1512013 

April 5, 2013 

Darr 
POE 
SenE 

RE: 

Deai 

This 
the t 
disci 
clea 

If WE 

Dep 

Sinc 

Dr.I 
Med 
Fe!h 
Dipi 
Dipi 

i Palmer 
x 355 
a Falls, NY 13148 

ompletion of Treatment 

)arren: 

to certify that you were admitted to the Caron Primary Care Residential Services for 

atment of chemical dependency on July 16, 2012. You completed the program and 

rged routinely on August 15, 2012. At the time of your discharge you were medically 

d from the facility. 

an be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact the Medical Records 

at 1-800-678-2332. 

U 

nneth W. Thompson, M.D., FASAM 
al Director Caron Treatment Centers 
American Society of Addiction Medicine 

iat American Board of Addiction Medicine 
nat American Board of Internal Medicine 

rtID: 1688653 

,f. 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 16 of 26) 

Certificate 
2/10/13 8:26 PM 

C STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY 

HELMAN EDUCATION CREDIT 
}400L OF PHARMACY 

PROViDE THE UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA ESHELMAN SCHOOL OF PHARMACY 

ACPE 
UNIVERS ACTIVITY TITLE 

ACTIVITY CONTACT CEll 
ACTIVI 

DATE HOURS 

NUMBE 

0046-99 - The Impact of Ilyponatremia: Role of the 6/11/12 
12-293 PharmaciSt in Improving Care: A ComplimentarY .6/11114 

0.1 1.00 

HO 1-P Knowledge-BaSed Home Study CPE Activity 

2/10/2013 

Darren Pal r 
Issue Date 

P0 Box 355 

Seneca Fall New York 13148 AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

http:/ jwww.powerpak.c /certlficate/ 
Page 1 ol 1 



(Page 17 26) 

2/10/13 6:54 PM 

OWER-PAK C.E. 
TEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

NI E: TITLE: 

stgraduate Healthcare Counseling Patients About Heartburn, 

ucatlon, LLC Constipation, and Intestinal Gas 

A( EUAN RELEASE DATE: 

30-0000-1 2-035-H01-P 1212012012 

AC IVITY TYPE EXPIRATION DATE: 

owledge 1213112014 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

/ E: CREDITS EARNED: 

n-en Palmer 2.00 

AD RESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 10-A 

Box 355 STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 

C1 ,STATE,ZIP: 

neca Falls, New York 13148 
2 

AUTHORIZED 
SIGNATURE 

Susanne RN, BSN 

Page 1 of 1 

http:I jwww.powerpak.C jcertlflcatel 



(Page 18 of 26) 

Certificate 

hr.tp:I Iwww.powerpak.c /certlflcate/ 

2111113 4:02 PM 

page 1 of 1 

I 

ST 

OWE R-PAK C.E: 

E: 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER 

OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

NA 

AC 

AC 

TITLE: 

ACTIVITY IN FORMATION 

stgraduate Healthcare 
ucation, LLC 

UAN 

30-0000-1 2-038-HO I -P 

VITY TYPE 

owledge 

Ocular Surface Health in Glaucoma 
Management: The Pharmacist's Role 

RELEASE DATE: 

12!20I2012 

EXPIRATION DATE: 

12131/2014 

NA E: 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION 

rren Palmer 

AD 

CREDIT INFORMATION 

CREDITS EARNED: 

200 

Box 355 

STATE, ZIP: 

neca Falls, New York 13148 

QUESTIONS MISSED: 6-D, 9-C, 12-C 

STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 2(11/2013 

I 
AUTHORIZED 
SIGNATURE L 

Bu5anne RN, 85N 



(Page 19 of 26) 

Âme can Pharmacists Association 
se A 

APhA 

VVashrngtonl 200372985 STATEMENT OF CREDIT 
(800) 237-274 
Fax: (202) 78 

Name: Dar n Palmer 

Date Comp ted: 1/25/2013 

Course: P Immunization Delivery Self-Study 

ACPE Univ sal 
Activity Nur )er: ACPE# 202-999-11-1 36-HOl -P 

Credits: 1. 

Activity Typ : Application-Based 

he American Pharmacists Association is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 
harmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Authorized ignature: 

Shelby Eng rt 

Senior Dire or of Education 



(Page 20 of 26> 

Ame can Pharmacists ' 
APhA 

STATEMENT OF CREDIT 
(800) 237-274 
Fax: (202) 78 :351 

Name: Dar n Palmer 

Date Camp ted: 1/26/2013 

Course: P rmacy-Based Immunization Delivery Live Seminar 

ACPE Univ sal 

Activity Nut per: ACPE# 202-999-1 1-135-L0l-P 

Credits: 0. 0 

Activity Typ : Application-Based 

harmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 
[ he American Pharmacists Association is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

Authorized gnature: 

Shelby Eng rt 

Senior Dire or of Education 



(Page 21 of 26) 

iNST lUTE FOR NATURLALRESOURCES(INR) 
Box 5757 + Concord, CA USA 94524-0757 • TEL (925) 609-2820 . FAX (925) 687-0860 

STA TEMENT OF CREDIT 

PALMER RREN 

PROF: RP 

CLASS CC E: U20130306SY 

PROGRAM TITLE: STRESS, ANXIETY AN1) DEPRESSION 

March Syracuse-Liverpool. NY 
Date Location 

Continuing credit inform a is listed below. This course is presented in a live interactive format, 

REGISTERED NIIRSF PRACFICAL 6 CONTACT : 
Institute for Natural Rest n (INR) is an approved provider of continuing nursing education by the Virginia Nurses Assoctation, an accredited approver by the Antesican Nurses' Credentialitsg Centers 

Consosiasion on Aectedil a. The code for this session of this course on this date is: . 
Nurses licensed by the si of New York. Massachuseos, and Versstootcan obtain (6) contact hours by ssiccesnflully completing this course. Massachusetts-Licensed nurses can use the six (6) contact hours 

earned at this continuing cation activity for renewal of their irate nursing licenses. 11415. has been accredited as a continuing education provider by the Califonua Board of Registered Nursing (CEP 

#06136), the Florida Bot f Nursing (#50.3026.1). the Iowa Board of Nursing (#288). and the Kansas Board of 

Nursing -0927) 
PHARMACISTS 6 ACT : INR is accredited by the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education (ACPE) as a provider of continuing phanrsscy educafloo The Illinois Board 

______ 

of Pharmacy and the bat of pharmacy of all 50 states will acccpr. for credit toward liecntie renewal, courses presented by an ACPE-acsredited organization. The ACPE universal aclivity 

number (UAN) for this e tis -P. This is a knowledge based CPE activity. 

- - NS & l)TRt 6 CONTACT INR. under Provider Number 114001, is a Continuing Professional Education (CPE) Accredited Provider with the 

Commission on Dietetic istration (CDR). Registered dietitians (RDu) and dietetic technicians, registered (DTRs) will receive 6 hours worth of continuing professional education units CPEUs) 

______ 

for completion of this pi ns/osatetials. Continuing Professional Education Provider Accreditatios does sos constitute endorsement by CUR of provider, program, or materials. CDR is the 

credentsaliag agency for Academy of Nutsution and Dietetics (AND). 

________ 

PSYCBOLOGIST9J6 NTACT : LNR is approved by the American Psychological Ausociutron to sponsor continuing education for psychologists. INR maintains rauponsibility for this 

program and its S. 
SOCIAL WORKERS f ONTACT HOUISSIS Under Sponsor #159.000260, the Stare of Illinois Department of Professional Regulation has approved INR as a sponsor of continuing education for 

illinois-licensed tocial w as. This program is approved by the National Association of Social Workers (Provider #S86502971-l4 19) for 6 social work continuing education contact hours. 

OCCUPATIONAL & S1CAL THERAPISTS 6 CONTACT : INR is an AOIA Approved Provider of continuing education. Provider #5347. THE has assigned 0.6 AOTA CEUs for this 

course. The assignment OTA CElia does not imply endorsement of specific course consent, produce, or clinical procedures by AOTA. 

Application for approval this course has been made to the American Physical Therapy Associatsoo - New York Chapter for 6 host, of continuing education credit 

CASE MANAGERS i6 N'TACT HOURSI This program has been pre-approvcd by the Commission for Case Manager Certification so provide continuing education credit to Certified 

Case Managers (CCMu). is course is approved for six (6) continuing education contact hours. Activity rode: S000 1260 Approval 1761. 
NURSING HOME Al rNTflRATORS 6 CONTACT HOURS): This educational offering has been reviewed by the National Cocitinuieg Education Review Service (NCERS) of the Nalsoissl 

Association of Long Ta ire Administrator Bonrds (NAB) and approved for 6.00 cluck hours and 6.00 participant hours—Approval #05122012.6.00- -in. INR (Sponsor #139-000175) has been 

approved by the Stare of isois Dcparbnesst of ?mfnisiunol Rrgs,looors as a sponsor of uossts,rnirrg aduaatsoe far nursmg hame udmusiossator's. 

COUNSELORSJ6C4) INR is an NBCC-Approved Continuing Education Provider (ACEP) and may offer NBCC.approved clock hours for events that meet NBCC 

requirements. The ACEP lely is responsible foe all aspects of the program. 

THTRAPF 6 CONTACT HOURS]i Institute for Natural Resources is approved by the National Certification Board of Therapeutic Massage and Bodywork (NCBTMB) as a 

continuing education Ap ved Provider. INR has approval #299936-00. 

OTHER HEAE.ThIE tSSIONALS 6 CONTACT ) Participants etsccessfully completing this course will receive course completion certificates. For rules governing continuing 

education credits, pertici is should contact their respective regulatory boards. 

Ah12! 
RICHARD S. COLMAN, Ph.D., Program Administrator, March 6, 2013 

1500 



(Page 22 of 26) 

Accredited provider of medica? and education 

Statement of Credit 

venting Medication Errors to Improve Patient Outcomes 

Congratulations 

Darren Palmer 

Date Compieted: March 22, 2013 

Universal Activity Number: 0255-0000-11 -032-H05-P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

This acti y has been approved for 2.0 contact hour(s) of continuing education for pharmacists by 

PRIME I ucation, Inc. (PRIME®), an ACPE Accredited Provider. 

is accredited by the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education as a provider 
of continuing pharmacy education. 

http://primeinc.org/Cert ate! 10WB086/acpe 

tLv. 
Lynn Goldenberg, RN, BSN 

Signed and issued on: March 22, 2013 

Page 1 of 2 

Statement of Credit 3/22/13 6:21 PM 

P 

Pi 

Pharmacist License Number: N1 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flonda through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Richard P. Becker 
2800 E. Sunrise Blvd., Unit 17E 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304 

RE: Application for Licensure by Endorsement 

Dear Mr. Becker: 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, October 9, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. The meeting begins at 
1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.floridaspharmacy. gov/meeting-information/upcoming-meetings/. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Cumbie 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA lth 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 

HEALTh 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

September 18, 2013 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


FLORIDA BOARD 

p.o. Box 6320 • Ta 

Phone: (850) 245-4: 

EM #2- PHARMACIST ENDORSEMENT APPLICATION 

FEE: $295.00 

Phone Number 

Date of Birth 
.LLEV) 

2. Equal OPP0rtufl1tY Data — We are required to ask that Y0u furnish the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

rEv: 
way affe your candidacY for u 

Have YOU ever changed your 
have you ever 

been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the changes below. Use a 

if 

12/11/2012 295.00 

ID: 42747 
Type: F 

BT: 3010262 

'&: 912031341 

s Phone Number 

Place of 

DH-MQA 100, 02109 Page 2 of 6 

Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 



Please indicate the date you successfully completed the NAPLEX 

Date 

9. Would you be willing to provide health services in special needs shelters or to help staff disaster 

medical assistance teams during times of emergency or major ? 
Yes No 

10. Method of application - Please select one of the methods of application listed below; you must submit 

proof the requirement you choose has been met. 

"A. Two years of active practice within two (2) of the last five (5) years. 

B. Successful completion of an internship within the immediately preceding two (2) years. 

PLEASE NOTE: If you have been licensed in another state in excess of 2 years from the date of your 

application you must choose A and have completed 30 hours of continuing education in the previous two (2) 

calendar years. If you choose "B' your internship date will be determined by the Board based on your 

graduation date, unless the state board of pharmacy where your hours were earned submits the certification of 

intern hours earned in that state within the preceding two (2) years. 

11. List two years work experience if you are applying under IOA Note: you must submit one (1) 

Internship or Work Experience Form — Form B (Item #4) for each employer listed . Use a 

separate sheet, if necessary. List internshio experience if you are applyinu under . 
Dates Employer Location 'Intern Or Pharmacy 

Experience 
Total Hours 

12. List all jurisdictions in which you have been licensed as a pharmacist; Note: must submit one 

Licensure Fnrm Item #51 for each listad belnw. Use a seDarate sheet, if . 
. - .—-—--——------ --- -. 

Issued State or U.S. Jurisdiction License Number Date 

13. Special Testing Accommodations — please indicate if you require special testing accommodations due 

to a disability, or if you have a religious conflict with the scheduled examination date. If yes, complete the 

Request for an Application for Testing Accommodations (item #6) and submit it to Testing Services. 

You may also contact Testing Services by telephone 18501 245-4252 for detailed information and an 

All requests must be made in writing and include supporting . 
Yes 

14. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendre, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a ipinor traffic offense? 

Yes No 
(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record 

of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

DH-MQA 100, 02109 

Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 
Page 3 of 6 



19. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 

in this state or any other state or U.S.jjtisdiCtiOfl? 

Yes No 

20. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 

jurisdiction when disciplinary pending? 

Yes No 

21. Are you presently being investigateØ4r is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 

817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 

control) or a similar felony offense(s) state or jurisdiction? (If no, do not answer 23 _ 
Yes 

23. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 

the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent ? 
Yes No 

23a. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 

the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 

felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes No 

23b. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 

it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 

probation? 

Yes No 

23c, If "yes" to 23, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 

the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 

documentation). 

Yes No______ 

24. Have you been convicted ot, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 

1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes______ 
since the sentence 

24a. If "yes" to 24, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application 
conviction plea ended? and any subsequent period of probation for such 

Yes No_____ 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 5 of 6 

Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 



Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Sectiofli 

409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do 

25b. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 

Medicaid Program for the most recent 

Yes No 

26. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 

state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 

(If no, do not answer 26a and 26b.) 

Yes No 

26a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 

for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

26b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

26. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 

Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide official 

documentation) 

Yes______ No______ 

27. If yes" to any of the questions 22 through 26 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled 

in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 

recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 

official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes_ No 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 

you answer "yes" to any questions in 16-26, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit 

a certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or 

all if applicable. 

Section '13(1)(a), ES., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change 

in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place between the initial filing of the application and 

the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the 

basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations they deem appropriate 

and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have 

or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board or any municipal, county, 

state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a 

pharmacist's license may be revoked or suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, 

diploma or other document, in connecti ri with application for a license or permit, as set forth in section 456.01 5(2)(a), 

OctO 30, 01 

Applicant Signature Date 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 6 of 6 

Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 



Board of 

DEC 2 7 REC'U 

FLORIDA DEPARTMFNT OF 

HEALT 

Pharmacy 
FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 
Phone: (850) 245-4292 'www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #3- CERTIFICATE OF PHARMACY EDUCATION (FORM A) 

Please print or type legibly. 
Part . — To be completed by applicant and forwarded to the College of Pharmacy for completion of 
Part II below. 
Last Name I First Name I Middle Name 

Ic-irn R6) I 
Li L 

Date of Graduation Maiden Name/Surname 

• 

City State Zip 

7E'& 07 0 37a 

Part II. — To be completed by an official of the university 
Name of SchoolICoHege of Pharmacy 

University of the Sciences in Philadelphia 
Mailing Address 600 South 43rd Street City State Zip 

Philadelphta, PA 19104 

Type of Degree Awarded Date Degree Awarded Dates of Attendance 

The information recorded above is true and correct according to the official records of this institution. 
Failure to include the school seal may result in a delay in processing the applicants application. 

Therese M. 
Print Name 

Regfstrar 

Title 

Signature : 

DEC 142012 
Date 

(SCHOOL 
SEAL) 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 1 of 1 

Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

L\7flL\fl 

Mailing Address 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 



Richard Becker R. Ph., MBA 
2800 East Sunrise Blvd., Unit 17E 

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304 
(954) 566-7222 — Home 
(973) 229-2729 — Cell 
richardpbeCkerjr@gmail.com 

success leading large, medium and entrepreneurial companies to record growth in fiercely 

competitive markets. track record in building commercial infrastructures, 

new product launches, life-cycle management, strategic planning, business development, 

branding and key opinion leader development for Global and US businesses. Successful 

team leader with very strong interpersonal skills and proven ability to formulate bold visions 

and guide them to strategic implementation. MBA Marketing. BS Pharmacy with honors. 

PROFESSIONAL 
EXPERIENCE: 
August, 2012 ALCON LABORATORIES, Fort Worth, TX 

- Current Global Brand Leader - JETREA® 

• Lead the Pharmaceutical Retina Division in launching a first in class product in Europe. 

• Implementing market development strategy for Latin America, which includes building 

the commercial operations and distributor interfacing. 

• Providing strategic leadership to successfully drive sales growth for approved 

indications as well as contribute to the life-cycle development strategy. 

• Collaborate closely with regional and country teams to enable tactical implementation of 

brand promotional & medical education strategies worldwide. 

• Developed and executed the Global Launch Plan, ongoing strategic business plan, 

tactical program development & and ROl assessment. 

• Lead the cross functional and international brand teams for customer initiatives (e.g., 

core promotional tools, international meetings, public relations, publications, internal 

communications, etc.) to maximize product sales potential. 

• Monitor and control brand budgets, forecasts and expenses and assess the marketing 

mix of assigned products to evaluate cost effectiveness and results. 

September, 2011 TOPOTARGET AS., Copenhagen, Denmark 

- August, 2012 Consultant I Acting Commercial Leader reporting to CEO 

• Developed Strategic Commercialization plans for belinostat in hematology & oncology. 

• Participated in developing overall corporate strategy including operations and distributor 

strategies for Latin America and Asia Pacific. 

• Developed U.S. strategic business plan for Totect® which improved sales by 120% 

• Led U.S. divesture activities of Topotarget USA and Toted® 

August, 2011 TG THERAPEUTICS, Inc., New York, NY 

- February, 2012 President, Emerging Markets 
• Led the commercial and clinical development strategies for ublituximab in oncology 

immunology and renal disease 
• Developed operating business model through commercial assessment of product 

forecasts, life-cycle opportunities and optimizing target product profile 

• Participated in execution of fundraising process for private and public markets 

• Participated in developing overall corporate strategy and oversaw execution of the 

strategy, as formulated by the CEO 

• Optimized product positioning and customer value through advisory boards, market 

research and competitive intelligence analysis 



December, 2005 MERCK & CO., Whitehouse Station, NJ 
- August, 2011 Regional Oncology Franchise Leader, Asia Pacific + Japan (1110- 09/11) 

• Managed portfolio, regional P&L and commercial operations; Grew sales by 32% vs 
2010 and 24% vs 2009, while combating new generic entries 

• Led Commercial Business Development across the Emerging Markets, resulting in 
partnerships for India, China and Japan. 

• Created strategic business models in China, Korea and Japan which will grow 
the oncology business by 20+% annually over a three-year forecast horizon. 

• Launched 3 new products across Asia Pacific 
• Implemented a regional sales training program 
• Developed & implemented two patient registry programs 
• Designed & implemented a Multi-Channel Marketing program for Japan & China 
• Executed patient access & reimbursement strategies to drive customer value. 
• Built and managed a staff of three. 

Global Brand Leader, Marketing (Oncology) (06/06 — 12/09) 
• Launched Zolinza® in U.S. and Latin American markets for Cutaneous T-cell 

Lymphoma, resulting in a first-year market penetration of 25%. 
• Led all commercialization and P&L activities for Zolinza® 
• In conjunction with Latin America regional leadership, developed commercial and 

operational plans with internal and external partners. 
• Created global life-cycle plan for Zolinza® for both solid and liquid tumors, which will 

generate over $1 Billion in probabilized peak sales. 
• Developed strategic plan which will improve development time lines by 6 months, 

resulting in a potential cumulative sales gain of $60 Million. 
• Designed cross-divisional processes and infrastructure to drive compound 

assessments, go/no-go decisions and target profile development for Zolinza® 
• Co-Chaired the Thoracic and Hematology Strategy teams. 
• As Executive Sponsor - Developed Standard Operating Procedures for product sourcing 

& patient access programs, resulting in cost savings of $22 and $14 M 

• Built and managed a staff of six. 

— rs. — D,,eI,Lu, — EdtIy IJevtIupIIItnIL (1405— 
• Led commercial assessment and successful in-licensing efforts for ridaforolimus 
• Developed and executed commercialization strategies for pipeline including Target 

Product Profile's, forecast's and life-cycle plans 
• Supported Business Development team in identifying and evaluating potential deals. 
• Assumed Global Brand Leader responsibilities for Aurora Kinase portfolio 

May, 2004 - OSI PHARMACEUTICALS, Melville, NY 
December, 2005 Brand Director, Marketing (Oncology) — Tarceva® 

• Responsible for consolidated (U.S. + International) P&L. 
• Successfully launched Tarceva® in United States for two indications. The launch in nd / 

3rd..Iine NSCLC was the third highest revenue generating in oncology history with a first- 
year market share of 25 and 40% respectively. 

• Developed and executed strategic business plans with external partners. 
• Developed / implemented brand and life-cycle strategies. 
• Awarded launch of year, brand of year, number one product management team and 

small molecule of the year by Product Management Today (Oct., 2005) 
• Championed Global Brand team and leader of several tripartite cross-functional teams 

to maximize commercial value. 



March, 2002 NOVARTIS PHARMACEUTICALS, Florham Park, NJ 

- May, 2004 Global Brand Director, Early Commercial Development (Oncology) 
• Developed initial global commercialization strategies for two phase Ill and three phase II 

compounds, including Afinitor® and Tasigna®. 
• Initiated global marketing commercialization activities including marketing plan 

development, communication planning, life-cycle management, medical education 
coordination, opinion leader and advisory board development. 

• Championed cross-functional teams to craft optimal target product profiles, clinical 
development plans and pre-launch marketing strategies. 

• Led commercial assessment and successful in-licensing efforts for gimatecan. 
• Awarded four patents on epothilone B combinations 
• Completed Novartis Marketing Excellence training for high potential leaders. 

November, 2000 BAYER CORPORATION, West Haven, CT 
- March, 2002 Deputy Director, U.S. New Business Development (Oncology) 

• Led U.S. business development and licensing efforts, which expanded portfolio by 40% 
through product and business acquisitions. 

• Developed long-term product and portfolio strategic plans for US market. 
• Managed and developed U.S. pipeline commercialization strategies, including 

Nexavar® for Renal Cell Cancer. 
• Profit and Loss responsibilities for DTIC-Dome®. 

June, 1996 BASF CORPORATION, Mount Olive, NJ 
- November, 2000 Marketing Leader — America's Region - Pharmaceutical Specialties (1998-2000) 

• Developed and executed America's business plan and product launches. 
• Global P&L responsibilities for antiseptic and oncology portfolios. 
• Developed and implemented strategic marketing plans, which maximized immediate 

and long-term portfolio growth. Cumulative sales growth of 105% over two years. 
• Formulated a new marketing campaign for a stagnate product that achieved 65% 

market share and a 900% revenue increase in eighteen months. 
• Built and managed a staff of four with dotted-line responsibilities for Canada, Mexico 

and Central America. 

Sales Development Specialist (1996—98) 
• Strategic key sales account and market development for North America. 
• Obtained product approvals at key accounts, while facilitating development of new and 

existing products. 
• Provided market research, which determined value-added products / services for the 

pharmaceutical market. 
• Technically interfaced with customers' R&D departments to provide assistance and new 

product training. 

Prior Relevant 
Experience: PRiMARY HEALTH SERVICES - Director - Marketing & Pharmacy (1995-96) 

CURAFLEX INFUSION SERVICES - Director of Oncology Services (1 993-95) 
FARRINGTON LAKE PHARMACY - Pharmacy Manager (1 991-93) 
RITE AID PHARMACY - Regional Manager (1988-91) 
MERCK & Co. - Process Pharmacist - Mevacor® launch team (1 987-88) 
ELI LILLY & SMITHKLINE - Sales I Marketing intern programs (1988) 

Education: Drexel University Philadelphia, PA 
Masters in Business Administration — Marketing 

Philadelphia College of Pharmacy & Science Philadelphia, PA 
Bachelor of Science (with honors) - Pharmacy 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Page 1 of 6) 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 
First MI Last - 

Address 372- City/State Cfi6s - . 

License # P-E 2031 Seminar Date 11/17/2011 Location of Seminar FL 

This is to certify that the individual listed above has attended and has met the required standards of completion 
for continuing education for the seminar entitled: 

Food For Thought: How Nutrients Affect Mental Health arid the Brain 
Presented by Nick .S. Hall, Ph.D. 

NURSES: histitute for Brain Potential (IBP) is an approved by the Florida Board of Nursing. This program is 6 contact 
hours for Florida RNs and LPNs. 
IBP is accredited as a provider of continuing nursing education by the American Nurses Credentialing Center's Commission 
on Accreditation. 
PSYCHOLOGISTS: This course is approved by the Florida Board of Psychology to provide 6 hours of continuing 
education. IBP is approved by the American Psychological Association to sponsor continuing education for psychologists. 
IBP maintains responsibility for this 6-hour program. 
SOCIAL WORKERS, MARRIAGE ANDFAMILY THERAPISTS, & COUNSELORS: IBP has been approved to provide 
6 hours of continuing credit by the Floricia Board of Clinical Social WOrk. Marriage.and Therapy and 
Mental 

i PHARMACIST STATEMENT OF CREDIT: IF is accredited by the Accreditation COuncil for Pharmacy 
Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. This application-based activity is designated for 
6 hours (.6 CEU). Initial release date: 7/11/Il. UAN: 492-0000-11-024-1.04-P. 

A DENTAL PROFESSIONALS: IBP is an approved provider of the Florida Board of Dentistry. IBP is 
as an Approved PACE Program Provider by the Academy of General Dentistry (AGD). The formal continuing 
dental education programs of this provider are accepted by the AGD for Fellowship/Mastership and membership 
maintenance credit. Approval does not imply acceptance by a state or provincial board of dentistry or AGD 
endorsement. Subject Code 557, Verification Code I Lfor 6 hours of credit The current term of approval 

extends from 12/01/10 - 11/30/14. 

OCCUPATIONAL THERAPISTS: This course approved by the of Occupational Therapy Practice 
for 6 hours of continuing education. IBP is an approved. provicWt of the American Occupational TherapyAssociation 
(AOTA), provider #6050. The assignment of AOTA CEUs not imply endorsement of specific course content, 

f. -. - •-• .•- 
MASSAGE THERAPISTS This course is by the Florida Board of Massage for 6 CE hours 

ACUPUNCTURISTS: This course is pending approval by the Florida Board of Acupuncture for 6 CE hours. Replacement 
certificates will be provided once approved. For accreditation updates, contact customer service at (650) 960-3536 or visit 
www.cebroker;com, provider #50-9415. 

NURSiNG HOME ADMiNISTRATORS: JBP is an provider by the Fiori4a Board of Nursing Home 
Administration. The program provides 6 hours of credit. - 

CASE MANAGERS; The course listed above was completed on November 17, 2011 and is approved for 6.0 CElls. 
Approval.number: 790002250; To dam these CEUs, log into your CE. Center account-at wwW.ccmcertification.org. 

SPEECH-LANGUAGE PATHOLOGISTS AND AUDIOLOGISTS: This p±ogram has been approved for .6 CEUs or 6 

hours of continuing professional d.evelopment by the Florida Board of Speech-Language Pathology and Audiology 

DIETIT!A1'!S with ti-c. 
Commission on Dietetic (CDR) RegistereZ dietitians and dietetic technicians registered will receive 6 

- continuing professioiiàl èducatiorruriits (CFEUs) for completion of this prograni. - - . - 

OPTOMETRISTS: This program is approval with the Florida Board of Optometry for 6 hours of continuing 
education credit. Replacement certificates will be provided once approved. For accreditation updates, contact customer 
service at (650) or visit provider 
PHYSICAL THERAPISTS: This program is approved byrthe Florida Physical Therapy Association (FFrA) for 7 hours of 
continuing education credit. FPTA Accreditation Number: CE111017536. 

- 
Retain this send a copy of this certificate to your Ioaril untess specifica fly requested. 

FOR POTENTIAL, 1049 C El Monte Ave. #320, Mountain View, CA 94040 

.. ... . 5—-..- 

'4 . - - 
- 

t '.:f * 

-. .D.,President - - 

- Issued: 11/17/2011 - 



Provider Information 

Name Rutgers University Ernest Mario School of Pharmacy 

ACPE Universal Program Number Title Date CEUs 

Oncology and Supportive Care - Knowledge—Based 4/20/2011 
CPE Activity 

- I 

Name 

Address -- 

City. - . - 

Total Credits Issued 

or 

0.6 CEU'S 

6.00 Contact Hrs 

4/21/2011 
Date 

Signature 

wage.S Or b) 

Statement of Continuing Pharmaceutical 
Education Credit 

0038-0000-11-0! 6-L04-P 0.60 6.00 



Page 4 of 6) 

INSTITUTE FOR NATURAL RESOURCES (INR) 
P.O. Box 5757. Concord, CA USA 94524-0757 . TEL (925) 609-2820, FAX (925) 687-0860 

STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Prof. RPH U2O1L1O2OCL 

Lic. It R12013]. 

BECKER, RICHARD 
372 NOIQTE ROAD 

NJ 07930 

PROGRAM TITLE: CONQUERING PAIN 

Octobct- 20.2011 Clinton. NJ 
Date Location 

Continuing education credu inthemation is listed below: 

NURSES RN'tl & LICENSED PRACrICAL NUESES 6 CONTACT : 
Institute for Natural ResowctS is an approved provider of continuing stoning education by the Virgmm Nurses ociation. an accredited ver by the American Nurses' Crcdentialiug Ccnt&s 
Commission on Accreditation. The code frx this nessicar of this comae or this due is. U201 11 O2OCL 

New Jersey. Prrmsylvani*, and Delaware nurses mi ton the me (6) contact bows earned at this continorsig education activity for renewal of their nursing licennar. Nurses liconacd by the atates of New 

Jersey. New York. Pennsylvania, ned Delaware out obtain (6) contaCt bows by aratcurafully conspieting this This course's contact bones may aatisfy requirements catablisbed by produsional 

and omployers. Please check wills the entity. Ime been accredited as a continuing education provider by the California Bonni of Nursuig i' #06136), the Florida 

Board of Nursing 6-I), die tows Board of Nursing (6288). mid the Kansas Board of Nursing (IILTOI4O-0927). 

PHARMACS'rs 6 CONTACT : INR is by the Acarditatiosi 0 for Pharmacy Education (ACPE) as a providu of sng pharmacy education. The Ness Jersey, 

New York, Pennsylvania, arid Delaware Boards of Pharmacy and the boards of pharmacy of all 50 staten will for credit toward liunise renewal, presented by an ACPE-accrcditcd 

organization. The ACPE universal program mrtnber (UPN) for this cause is This isa knowledge-based CPE activity. 

DlrrrnANS 6 CONTACT ) INR, tainu Providu Number 114001. is a Continuing Piofessisiral Education (CPE) Accredited Prrwidar with the CotarniasUr on Dietetic 

(CDI tj. Regirterud dietitiana (RDS) and dietetic lechaicians, registered (DTRS) will rureive 6 hours worth of continuing professional education units (CPEUs) for cornpleuoo of this 
progrsnrhzmterials. Cootiruing Professional Educatioo Provider Accreditation dour not constitute ondorseusont by CDR of a provider. program, or materiala, CDR is the credentialing agency for Pruriler 

the American Dietetic Ansocintron (ADA). 

6 CONTACT : INE is approved by the American Psychotogital Amorurtinu to offer continuing education for psychologists. INP. .samtainu responsibIlity for — 
this program and its cadent. 

.a,i. woRSEtta CONTACT progress is approved by thu NASW (Providar 2071-5403) for 0 Omaitrar toatagumucut continuing seloun000 carson hours. Tam program 

hns beers approved by NASW-NeW York Stain ford, contact hours 'uI umber S-464-O. 

ThERAPISTS 6 CONTACr New herey, New Ycuk. and Penosylvasia-liccresed occupational siusessfsrtly completing 5 cower will receive course 

coauplctian certificates. This comae has been approved by the Delaware Professional Rcgulasiou - Board of Occupational Therapy for 6 hours of continuing education credit INR is an 

AOTA Approved Provider (#5347). The assignnsrrsr of AOTA CEUs does not imply endorsensont oItpsciflc course contest, products, or clinical procedures by AOTA. This intermediate 

level coarse has been assigned 0.6 .0Th CEUs. 

PHYSICAL THERAPISTS 4 COfITACT HOURSis The Delaware Professional Regulation - Esasutnuig Board of Physical Therapists will accept courses approved by other physical therapy boseds arid 

associations. This amuse has beers approved by the New State Board of Physical Therapy Examiners, Approval #1005-2010 and by the American Physical Therapy Associatieti - New York Chapter 

for 6 hones of ctaCsnuwg educgtion credit, Approval /2007. The Pennsylvania Slate Board of Physical Therapy ban approved this course far 6 hours of continuing education credit. Approval I. 
CASE MANACEIIS 16 CONTACT , The course title Conquerors Pain was complered on October 20,2011 and is approved for itO CEIJs. Approval number A427. To claim these CElls, log into 

your' CE Center aerciurt at .lifcatitm.rs'p. 
NURSINO HOME AIIMtNISTRATOKS (6 CONTACT : This educational offeciog has been reviewed by tIre National Continumg Education Review Service (NCERS) of the National 

Asaoc,atiini of Long Term Care Administrator Boards (NAB) and approved For 6.00 clock bourn .d 6.00 participant bones—Approval 120-in. The Pennsylvania State Board of Esamineas 

ofNursmg House Administrator his approved this course for (I hours of continuing education credit, Approval #NHCEIOO91S. 

COUNSELORS 6 CONTACT : INR (Provider #5736) it recognized by the National Bard for Certified Counselors to offer contiruing education for National Certified 

Counselors. INK adheres to NBCC Continuing Education Ouidelinrs. 

MASSAGE THERAPISTS (6 CONTACT : Irsstjtsne for Natural Resources is approved by tIre National Certification Somd of Therapeutic Musings and Bodywork 

(NCBTMB) nsa continuing education Approved Provider. INK has approval #299930-00. 

OTHER HEALTH PROFE.SSIONALS 6 CONTACT : Particilsurts successfully ccenplcting this course will restive cause completion certificates. For rules governing continuing educator 

£12! 
RICHARD S. COLMAN, Ph.D., Program Administrator, October 20,2011 

U3 150 



Ui. 0/ 

INSTITUTE FOR NATURAL RESOURCES (INR) 
P.O. Box 5757, Concord, CA USA 94524-0757 • TEL (925) 609-2820 • FAX (925) 687-0860 

STA TEMENT OF CREDIT 

Prof. P..PH 0201112i.SED 
Lic. # R12C}131 

BECKER, RD 
372 NORTH ROAD 
CRESTER, NJ 07930 

PROGRAM TITLE: THE TRANQUIL BRAIN: MOOD SWINGS, HORMONES & STRESS 

December ,2011 Edison, NJ 
Date Location 

Continuing education credit information is listed below: 

REC1STERED NURSER ). & LICENSED PRACTICAL NURSER L?N's)46 CONTACT : te for Natural Rmowees is on approved provides of centasuing nursurg education by the Virginia Nurses Association, on accredited approves by the Aarencan Credentlallig Cemess 
Commbelco on Accreditation. The code for this session of thus course our thin date is 112011 I . 
New Jersey, Pennsylvania. and Delawsee nurses can seethe ox (6) coatiethosas seined ac dde contitmiog education activity 6,r reuirwai of dicit' unsung hcmoea. Numea licensed by the statse of New 
Jersey, New Yodt. Pennsylvania, simm Delaware con obtain (6) contact bosurc by arecosaflilly cosnp(urisg this maine. This cuouc's ctatact hours may satiefr requissuienta csldelisistd bylwofeaniossel 
asarcuritoas and employers. Please check with the .ppropriaio entity. INR has been accredited as a ceurlinuing eduar*ioa provider by the Califurma Bnatd of Registered Numang (CEP , the Florida 
Buntt afNtwsing (#50-3026.1). the Iowa Boned of Nursing (#218). and the Kazons Brand ofNtrurag (#LTOI4O-0927). 

PRARIWACISTS 6 CONTACT ) !NR is by the Accreditation Council fur Pharmacy Education (ACPE) as a provider of continuing pb&rnaey education. The New Jersey, 
New Yotit, Pennsylvania, Delaware BmathofPharmacy arid the boards of pharniacy of all 50 states will sempt, credit Inward licetuserenewal. courses premaited by on ACFE.aeerrditcd 
organinalion. The ACPE universal program number (UP14) forthic is 751.000-1 t-0(H-LOl-P. This is a honaledge-based CPE activity. 

DIETITIANS 6 CONTACT : INK, nudes Provider Number 1(4001, in a Continuing Professional Education 'S) Aemerhint Provides with the Commission on Dietetic Registration 
(CDR). Registered dietitians )3) mid dietetic technicians, registered (DTRS) will receive 6 hours worth of continuing professional eduottion units (CPEIJs) for completion of this 
pro sam/materials. Continuing Professional Education Ptoviles Accreditation does act constitute endorsement by CDR of a provider, program, or suarteriak. CDR is the credeudiating agerary for 
the Asisezican Dietetic Asttsiatioo (ADA). 

psycHoLoGT1(rs (6 CONTACT : INK is approved by din Psychological Association to cootiauiag eduintmco for psychologists, INK maintains responsibility for 
this program and its content 

WORKERS 6 This program by fec NASW (Provider #886532971-5402) fur 6 clinict! social work ccetimthzg education hours. 

OCCUPATIONAL I1IERAPISTS 6 CONTACT ltOUHS iNK is mu AOTA Approved Provides (#5347). The asagtnoerfl of AUTA CPUs does not imply endorsement of specific 

______ 

comae content. products, or clinical procedures by ACT& This intermediate level cosine has heist asesgoed 0.6 AOTA . 
PHYSJCAL THERAPiSTS 6 CONTACT : This course has' approved by the New Jersey Starr Board of Physical Therapy Examiners (APFOSnI# 1140-2010) for 6 hours of continuing 
education credit This course, The Tianquil Brain: Mood Hotmones di Stress and Cosine #11/4)2008 has hems approved for 6 bouts by thu American Physical Therapy Atsocinlion - New YasIr 
Osapter, the Pennsylvania Stain Board of Physical Thrrapy Approval #rCE002232, and the Delaware Professional Regulation- Esasnining Bctazd of Phyincal Therapists for 6 bows of continuing 
education credit 

CASE MANAGERS 6 CONTACT : The course title The Tranquil Brain wan completed on Decendser 15.2011 and is approved for 6.0 CPUs. Approval mmarber A426 To claim these CE(Js, log 
into your CE Center accuset at www.ccusccstifcalmon.or& 

NIJRSINC ROME ADMINISTRATORS (6 CONTACT : This educational ofibring has revinvcd by the National Continuing Education Rtview Session (NCERS) of the National 
Aarociat.on of Long Term Cam Athuhuictrutor Boasde (NAB) mud approved for 6.00 clock hours and 6.00 participant hours—Approval #153201 1-6.00-7119-in. 

COUNSELORS (6 CONTACT ) INR (Provider ff5736) is rncopuixed by thu National Board for Cu,titind Co.mcrlras to offer coniorniog cdocatioa for National Cratiilcd 
Comuselors, HR adheres to NBCC Continuing Education (inklelinnc 

MASSACE THERAPISTS (6 CONTACT ) stitutc for Natural Resources is approved by the Certification Board of Therapeutic Massage and Bodywork 
(NCBTMB) a&a caminuargcdncaliou Approved INK has çzproval #299936-00. 

OilIER HEALTh FROFESSIONALS (6 CONTACT : Participants successfully completing Ibis course will receive coarse completion certificates, For rules governing continuing education 
credits, participants Should contact their respective regulatory 

£141! 
RICHARD S. COLMAN, PkD., Program Administrator, December 15, 2011 

U3570 



(Page 1 of 1) 

INSTITUTE FOR NATURAL RESOURCES ONR) P.O. I3ox 5757. Concord, (A USA 94524-0757 • TEL (925)609-2820. FAX (925) 687-0860 

STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

BECKER, RICHARD 
PROF.: RPH 
CLASS 

Date 

PRO(RAM TrTLE 

bylb ( The mdi 1w .máiio(cb4a wi_________ 
II. md&a. a., 

.p 
Et 

a I. Et 50 wdl .wpi be., .o . sO 

D EflyJ*wc & ia Ni. , Nmdwy el. 
I .'Wewed Ut die C..eiu.tcg 

ly e'j* a.. fla.c wae (a. II. Acaditcy .1 Ibeaa.ia. 

it ir1we.td dw Mwe.. PIycboKia.J io Ni ity (a. md Us ..itee, Ua4uCL liii e of Mtditud 'Idi fat 

SOCIAL £ 
— wail lId k by dir IdItUsi 

weed 
Ni the Ama.. 

I UI 

ultId wm,eaata tX . IVL* ii. vi die a. , 
CASE lId lit tepec44e Tb. we.. it 1w cwee i¼1.sey aid,: 51E03217 I b diEtdit a. Eto If 

M 
lie N.J..il (WAJI)md .fII 

(NI aet , datE Ide, . esmv,tb. itte re,uãtwee Tb. 7 uS 1w efl lube 

h lb. N*NtcW —ir .g, PvmI.Et NK Id C11IdId (Na Sb. Tb 

Penc.çe,s weWnaç will weic reirfEtle, rndw. idea., . ieupra.a. ellaitmy 

RJCHAW S. CC)LMAN, PyoEyam Adminisuetor. 20. 20)3 

)40 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

_______________ 

of all people in Flonda through integrated John H Armstrong, MD, FACS state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

September 18, 2013 

Janet Dwigans 
6974 W CO Road 255 
Greencastle, IN 46135 

RE: Application for Licensure by Endorsement 

Dear Ms. Dwigans: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, October 9, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. The meeting begins at 
1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.floridaspharmacy.gov/meeting-inforrnation/upcoming-meetings/. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

,hmes Cumbie 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACE BOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 28) 

06/12/2013 
ID: 43834 

295.00 
Type: F 

BT: 3022956 

VL: 912066980 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
P.O. Box 6320 Tallahassee, FL 3231 4-6320 

Phone: (850) 245-4292 
www.doh.state.fi.us/mqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #2- PHARMACIST ENDORSEMENT APPLICATION 
FEE: $295.00 

Last Name First Name Middle Name ')A 
Street Ad*ess (ML — Mailing Address) City State Zip 

7 '1 Co cad .1t1 
Work Address (PL — Practice Location) City State Zip 
1 E. -I. 

Home Phone Number Business Phone Number E-Mail Address 

(p53 - 
Date of Birth Place of Birth' 

.:rA) 
2. Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 
i, Li 

RACE: Caucasian 0 Black OHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 

3. Have ever changed your name through marriage or through action of a court or have you ever 
been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the changes below. Use a 

separate sheet. if necessary. 

Yes X No 

NAME DATE 

SmaI ( 7.... 
4. Name of university, college or school of pharmacy atte ded: 

Purdue. 
5. Date Of Graduation 6. Of Degree Earned 7. Have you ever been licensed as an 

intern in Florida? 

J3.s. Yes____ No X 
Intern License Number: 

DH-MQA lao, Page 2 of 6 

Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

1. Biographical Data 
Please print or type legibly. \— 



Page 4 of 25) 

8. Pie ase indicate the date you successfully completed the NAPLEX examination. 

Date 

9. Would you be willing to provide health services in special needs shelters or to help staff disaster 

medical assistance teams during times of emergency or major ? 
Yes N0X 
10. Method of application - Please select one of the methods of application listed below; you must submit 

proof that the requirement you choose has been met. 

A. Two years of active practice within two (2) of the last five (5) years. 

B. Successful completion of an internship within the immediately preceding two (2) years. 

PLEASE NOTE: If you have been licensed in another state in excess of 2 years from the date of your 

application you must choose A and have completed 30 hours of continuing education in the previous two (2) 

calendar years. If you choose "B" your internship date will be determined by the Board based on your 

graduation date, unless the state board of pharmacy where your hours were earned submits the certification of 

intern hours earned in that state within the oreceding two (2) years. 

11. List two years work experience it you are applying under IOA Note: you must submit one (1) 

Internship or Work Experience Form — Form B (Item #4) for each employer listed below. Use a 

separate sheet, if necessary. List internship experience if you are applying under IOU. 

Dates Employer Location Intern Or Pharmacy Total Hours 
Experience 1 VF4 

12. List all jurisdictions in which you have been licensed'as a pharmacist. Note: you must submit one 

(1) Liceiisure Ferm dtem #5) for each Use a separate sheet. if . 
- — -—-— 

State or U.S. Jurisdiction License Number Date Issued 

i/eJ13 

13. Special Testing Accommodations — please indicate if you require special testing accommodations due 

to a disability, or if you have a religious conflict with the scheduled examination date. If yes. complete the 

Request for an Application for Testing Accommodations (Item #6) and submit it to Testing Services. 

You may also contact Testing Services by telephone (850) 245-4252 for detailed information and an 

inolication. All reauests must be made in writing and include supporting . 
Yes No 

14. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendre, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

Yes No X 
(You must include all misdemeanors and even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record 

of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

DH-MQA 100,02/09 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

Page 3 of 6 



(Page 6 28) 

19. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 
in this state or any other state or U.S. jurisdiction? 

Yes No________ 
20. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No_______ 
21. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating tosocial and economic assistance), Chapter 
817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 
control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If no, do not answer 23 ) 
Yes No X 
23. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has It been more than 15 years from 
the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes No 

23a. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the third has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes No 

23b. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 
it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
t.. 

Yes No 

23c. If "yes" to 22, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes_____ No_____ 
24. you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 (relating to controlled Substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395-1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes______ No______ 

24a. If "yes" to 24, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 
and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes No______ 

IJH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 5 of 6 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 



(Page 7 of 28> 

25. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 25b.) 

Yes_______ No 

25b. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

26. Have you ever been terminated for cause, purstiant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 26a and 26b.) 
Yes No 
26a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 
for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

26b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

27. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide official 
documentation) 

Yes______ No______ 

28. If "yes" to any of the questions 22 through 26 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled 
in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes________ No 

• All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 16-26, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit 

- a certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or 
all if applicable. 

Section 456.01 3(1 )(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change 
in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place between the initial filing of the application and 
the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are (we, complete and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the 
basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations they deem appropriate 
and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have 
or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board or any municipal, county, 
state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a 
pharmacist's license may be revoked or suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, 
diploma, or other document, in connection with an application for a license or permit, as set forth in section 456.01 5(2)(a), 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 6 of 6 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 



age o or 

H..E 
FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

AJ..i 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 
Phono: (850) 245-4292 • .state.fl.uslmqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #3- CERTIFICATE OF PHARMACY EDUCATION (FORM A) 

- ., .. 
. 

print or type 
I — To be completed by applicant and foTwarded to the Coflege of Pharmacy for completion of 

Part II below. 
Last Name .. - - I. Fir5t Name Middle Name 

_I 

-...._____ 

flat-k - 

Maiden Ndm&Surname Date of Graduation 

-52Lz87 ._______ City Stat 

(1" 

Part II. — To be completed by an official of the university 

_______- 

Name of School!ColIeg! of Pharmacy . .... ..... .. - 

Mading Address 
. 

City - Zip — 

Type of Degree Awarded - Date Degree ..T TEJates of Attendance - 
From: I / 

To: J._I_ 

The information recorded above is true and correct according to the official records of this institution 
Failure to include the school seal may result in a delay In processing;the.app#icant's application 

A' K ' 
Print Name Signatt.ire . ;v. . (SCHOOL 

'I SEAL) 

Title Date 

NOTE Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA 100. 02/09 Page 1 of 1 

Rule FA.C. 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 

-MQA PH100, 02/09 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.AC. 

FrOm:tk/Lk 
To: 

6. Total hours of 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04. Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 Phone: (850) 245-4292 

ITEM #4- INTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE FORM (FORM B) 
Please print or type 

I HEREBY APPLY FOR INTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE CREDIT AS OUTLINED BELOW UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF: 

3. information 
Pharmacist's Name 

Street Address 

Phone Number 

5. number UOUFS per week 

more than 50 hours 

.s Signature 

are a student and 
is 

Signature 

is a correct statement of fact. The above information was taken from the records of the above and are available for inspection by the Board of PJiarmacv 

Date 

ease check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE FL 32399-325.4 

Page 1 of I 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 2) 

STATE OF INDIANA 
Michael R. Pence isn& 1,iatasiag Aetncy 

.102 W. 5hin2thn Si. Room W()72 
IN 46204 

Phone: (317) 232-2980 : (317) 2334236 

Official Proof of Licensure 

Digitally Certified Record 

Personal Information 

Name: Janet Mane Dwigans 

Address: 6974W Co Rd 25 S 
Greencastle, IN 46135 

Date of Birth: 12/3011962 

License Information - 

Number Issued: 260161 26A 

License Type: Pharmacist 

Status: Active 

Issue date: 07/27/1987 

Expiration Date: 06/30/2014 

Obtained By: Examination 

Disciplinary Action: None 

This licensee nas met ALL requirements for Itcensure in the State of indians - including successfully 

passing all required exams. 

For additional information including questions regarding Disciplinary Action, contact the appropriate 

Board or Commission at www.in.gov/plalboardS.htm 

Digitally Certified on: Mon Jul 08 02:29:15 PM EDT 2013 

UNITED STATES 
POST4L SEP VICE o 

Electronic Postmark 



(Page 2 of 2> 

P. STATE OF INDIANA 
Michael R. Pence 

iana Agency 
402 W. St. Ronrn %V072 

Indianapolic. IN 46104 
Phone: (317) 232-2980 
Fax: (317) 233-4136 

Digitally Certified Proof of Licensure 

RE: Janet Marie Dwigans 

I, Nicholas W. Rhoad, Executive Director of the Indiana 

Professional Licensing Agency and custodian of the records 

therein, hereby certify that the attached is the digitally 

certified proof of licensure, as requested, and as it appears 

in the files of the Indiana Professional Licensing Agency on 

the date/time certified. 

This digital certification follows the requirements of Indiana's 

Electronic Digital Signature Act (Indiana Code et 

seq.) and rules developed by the Indiana State Board of 

Accounts, 20 lAG 3-1 et seq. to establish a valid digital 

If you have the need to verify the authenticity of the digital 

certification as of the date and time stamp below, go to la/veTifY.htm and use our free web service 

to "Verify an Electronic Certified Record". Simply browse to 

the location you saved the secure pdf document sent to you 

and upload to validate. 

Nicholas W. Rhoad, Executive Director 
Mon Jul 0802:29:15 PM EDT 2013 

UNiTED ST,11E5 
POSTAL SERVSCE* 

Electronic Postmark 



(Page 8 of 20) 

BEFORE THE INDIANA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
CAUSE NUMBER: 2010 IBP 0038 

IN THE MATTER OF THE INDIANA ) 
PHARMACIST LICENSE RENEWAL ) 
APPLICATION OF: ) 

) 
JANET DWIGANS, ) 
LICENSE NUMBER: 26016126A. ) 

DECISION ON RENEWAL APPLICATION 

Janet Dwigans ("Applicant") made a personal appearance before the Indiana 

Board of Pharmacy ("Board") on June 14, 2010, in Room B of the Conference Center of 

the Indiana Government Center South, 402 West Washington Street, Indianapolis, 

Indiana, concerning her application to renew her license as a pharmacist. 

The Board, after considering the file and statements of the Applicant, votes 4 to 0 

to renew her pharmacist license on probation. 

BACKGROUND 

1. The Applicant, whose mailing address is 6974 West County Line Road 25 

South, Greencastle, Indiana 46135, applied to renew her pharmacist license in 2010. 

2. The Applicant revealed that in 2009 she started abusing her husband's 

prescription medications and ultimately overdosed on a combination of them in 

December of that year. 

3. She signed a five year recovery agreement with the Pharmacists Recovery 

Network (PRN) on January 12, 2010. 



(Page 9 20) 

4. Applicant has demonstrated to the Board that she is able to practice with 

reasonable skill and safety to the public provided she complies with the probationary 

terms set out below. She agrees to those terms. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Based upon the foregoing information, the Board imposes the following Terms 

and Conditions on the Applicant's license: 

I. The Applicant's license as a pharmacist will be renewed on INDEFINITE 

PROBATION. She may apply to have the probation withdrawn from her license after 

the successful completion of her recovery agreement with the PRN. 

2. The Applicant's practice as a pharmacist shall be governed by the following 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

a) CONTACT INFORMATION: Applicant must keep the Board apprised of the 

following information in writing and update it as necessary: 

I. Current home address, mailing address, e-mail address, and residential 

telephone number. 

2. Current place of employment, employment telephone number, employment e- 

mail address, and name of supervisor. 

3. Occupation and work schedule, including number of hours worked per week. 

b) Applicant shall cause her pharmacy employer to submit reports to the Board 

indicating the Applicant's professional competence, sense of responsibility, work habits, 

mental attitude and ability to work with others. The reports shall be submitted monthly 

for the first year she is on probation and quarterly thereafter. 

2 



(Page 10 of 20) 

c) Applicant shall provide a copy of all Board orders imposing discipline or 

limiting practice to any pharmacy employer who shall sign and return a copy of such 

orders to the Board within ten (10) days of employment or receipt of this order. 

d) Applicant shall submit self reflection reports detailing her current status, her 

progress in recovery, issues or problems she is experiencing, and the value she has gained 

by attending counseling or group recovery sessions. The reports shall be submitted 

monthly for the first year she is on probation and quarterly thereafter. 

e) Applicant shall immediately notify the Board of any relapse. 

f) Applicant shall immediately notify the Board in writing of any discipline 

incurred in other states during the duration of the probation; including criminal or 

licensing charges pending. 

g) Applicant shall submit a copy of any prescriptions she receives for personal 

consumption to the Board. 

h) Applicant may not be a qualifying pharmacist while she is on probation. 

i) Applicant will make probationary appearances monthly for the first year she is 

on probation and quarterly thereafter. Applicant's first probationary appearance will 

be at the October, 2010 meeting of the Board (please note that the October meeting 

is the first Monday of October and NOT the second Monday as it is with every other 

month). 

j) Applicant shall maintain her recovery agreement with the PRN and comply 

with its terms. 

k) Applicant may work two 12 hour shifts in one week, otherwise, she shall not 

work more than 10 hours in a single day, or 74 hours in two weeks. 

3 



(Page 11 of 20> 

I) Applicant shall per-form 12 hours oi community service a quarter and submit 

documentation of the completion of the community service when she makes her personal 

appearances. 

m) Applicant shall not violate any laws regulating the practice pharmacy. 

3. The failure of Applicant to comply with the terms of this decision may subject 

her to a show cause hearing and the imposition of further sanctions. 

ORDERED, day of August, 2010. 

INDIANA BOARD OF 

By: 
L. Kelly 

Director 
Indiana Professional Licensing Agency 

4 



(Page 12 of 20) 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO PETITION FOR REVIEW OF THIS DECISION 

You may petition for review of this decision under hid. Code § 4-21 5-3-7. The 
petition must be filed with the Indiana Board of Pharmacy in writing, identifying the 
reasons for review and demonstrating that you have been aggrieved or adversely affected 
by the Board's decision. The petition for review must be filed no later than eighteen days 
from the issuance of this decision unless such date is a Saturday, a Sunday, a legal 
holiday under state statute or a day the Indiana Professional Licensing Agency's offices 
are closed during regular business hours in which case the deadline would be the first day 
which is not a Saturday, a Sunday, a legal holiday under state statute or a day the Indiana 
Professional Licensing Agency's offices are closed during regular business hours. 

If your petition for review is timely filed and review granted, you will receive 
notification of an administrative hearing. You or your representative must be present at 
that hearing. You have the right to be represented by an attorney at your own expense. A 
deputy attorney general may be present to represent the state of Indiana. As petitioner, 
you will have the burden of proving that the Board's decision is incorrect. 

Copies : 
Janet Dwigans 
6974 West County Line Road 25 South 
Greencastle, Indiana 46135 
SENT CERTIFIED MAIL NUMBER: 91 7190 0005 2720 0003 0020 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED. 

5 



(sage 13 of 20> 

BEFORE THE INDIANA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
CAUSE NUMBER: 2010 IBP 0038 

FILED 
MAR 0 8 2011 

Indiana Professional 
Licensing Agency 

IN THE MATTER OF THE INDIANA ) 
PHARMACIST LICENSE OF: ) 

) 
JANET DWIGANS, R.PH., ) 
LICENSE NUMBER: 26016126A. 

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND ORDER 

The Indiana Board of Pharmacy ("Board") held an administrative hearing on 

February 14, 2011, in Room W064 of the Indiana Government Center South, 402 West 

Washington Street, Indianapolis, Indiana, concerning the request by Janet Dwigans, R.Ph. 

("Respondent") to modify the terms of probation on her license. 

The State of Indiana was represented by Deputy Attorney General, Darren 

Covington. Respondent appeared in person and waived her right to be represented by 

counsel. 

The Board, after considering the evidence presented and taking official notice of 

its file in this matter, voted 6 to 0 to issue the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions of 

Law, and Order: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. Respondent, whose mailing address is 6974 West County Line Road 25 South, 

Greencastle, Indiana 46135, is a duly licensed pharmacist in the State ofIndiana holding 

license number 2601 6126A. 

2. The Indiana Professional Licensing Agency sent, and Respondent received, 

timely and proper notice of the date, time, and location of this hearing pursuant to md. 

Code § 4-21.5-3-20. 



(Page 14 of 20) 

3. The Board is empowered to hold this administrative hearing pursuant to the 

authority of md. Code § 25-1-9-9 and md. Code § 4-21.5-3. 

4. The Board renewed Respondent's license on probation in June 2010 because 

she had abused her husband's prescription medications and eventually overdosed on those 

medications. She subsequently signed a recovery agreement with the Pharmacists 

Recovery Network ("PRN") in January 2010 and appeared to be in recovery. 

S. In a request submitted in January 2011, Respondent asked that the probation on 

her license be modified. She wanted relief from the prohibition of not working more than 

10 hours in a single day or more than 74 hours in a two week period. 

6. Respondent requested that the conditions on her probation be modified because 

it would allow her more work flexibility. The medical director of PRN supports her 

request that she be allowed to work up to 45 hours a week and that she be allowed to 

work 12 hour shifts provided the 12 hour shifts are not consecutive. 

7. Respondent has complied with all the Terms and Conditions of probation on 

her license and the Board concludes she can safely work if her probation is modified in a 

maimer that reflects the recommendations of PRN 

& The deficiency that led to the discipline on Respondent's license involved 

abuse of medications. Respondent's compliance with her probation and commitment to 

recovery constitutes changed circumstances warranting a modification of the Terms and 

Conditions of probation on her license. 

2 



(Page 15 ot 20) 

OF LAW 

I. "The board may withdraw or modify the probation ... if it finds, after a hearing, 

that the deficiency that required disciplinary action has been remedied, or that changed 

circumstances warrant a modification of the order." md. Code § 25-1-9-9(b). 

2. Respondent's compliance with her probation and commitment to recovery 

constitute changed circumstances warranting a modification of the Terms and Conditions 

of probation on her license. 

ORDER 

Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the Board 

MODIFIES the probationary order on Respondent's license, which was issued on 

August 27, 2010, as follows: 

1. Paragraph 2, k. of the Terms and Conditions on Respondent's license is 

modified to read as follows: 

k. Respondent may not work more than 45 hours a week. She 
12 hour shifts during a week provided the 12 hour shifts are nor 
consecutive. 

2. Paragraph 2, i. of the Terms and Conditions on Respondent's license is 

modified to provide that, starting this month, she must make an additional 

nine (9) personal appearances on a monthly basis. 

3. All other terms arid conditions on Respondents' license will remain in full 

force and effect. 

3 



(Page 16 of 20) 

ORDERED, this March, 2011. 

Copies : 

INDIANA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

By: 

Janet Dwigans, R.Ph. 
6974 West County Line Road 25 South 
Greencastle, Indiana 46135 
SENT CERTIFIED MAIL NUMBER: 91 7190 0005 2720 0006 7033 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED. 

Darren Covington 
Deputy Attorney General 
Office of the Indiana Attorney General 
K1CS 5th Floor 
302 W. Washington St. 
Indianapolis, N 46204 

4 

L. Kelly 
ive Director 
Professional Licensing Agency 



BEFORE THE INDIANA 
BOAR]) OF PHARMACY 
CAUSE NUMBER: 2010 IBP 0038 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. Janet Dwigans, whose mailing address is 6974 W County Road 25 S, 

Greencastle, Indiana 46135, is a duly licensed pharmacist in the State of Indiana holding 

license number 26016126A. 

2. The Indiana Professional Licensing Agency sent, and Dwigans received, timely 

and proper notice of the date, time and location of this hearing pursuant to md. Code § 4- 

21.5-3-20. 

(Page 17 of 20> 

IN TIlE MATTER OF THE INDIANA F I LED 
PHARMACIST LICENSE OF: ) A I i-'uu 7w': 

JANET DWIGANS, R.PH. ) indiana Professtonal 

LICENSE NUMBER: 26016126A ) Ucensrng Agency 

FINDINGS OF FACT. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER 

Janet Dwigans appeared at a hearing before the Indiana Board of Pharmacy 

("Board") on August 13, 2012, in Room W064 of the Indiana Government Center South, 

402 West Washington Street, Indianapolis, Indiana concerning her request to have the 

probationary terms withdrawn from her license as a pharmacist. 

The state of Indiana appeared by Joshua Timmons, Graduate Legal Intern and 

Darren Covington, Deputy Attorney General. Dwigans appeared in person and waived 

her right to be represented by counsel. 

The Board, after considering the file and the testimony of Dwigans, by a vote of 7 

to 0, issued the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order. 



(Page 18 of 20) 

3. The Board is empowered to hold this administrative hearing pursuant to the 

authority of md. Code § 25-1-9-9 and md. Code § 4-21.5-3. 

4. This Board renewed Dwigans' license on probation in August 2010 because in 

2009 she had started abusing her husband's prescription medications and ultimately 

overdosed on a combination of them in December of that year. She signed a three year 

recovery agreement with the Pharmacists Recovery Network (PRN) on January 12, 2010. 

5. In July 2012, Dwigans asked that the probation on her license be withdrawn. 

6. At the hearing on withdrawal of probation, Dwigans testified that she has 

complied fully with the terms of her probation, which included abiding by her recovery 

agreement with the PRN. Richard Hinchman, M.D., medical director of the PRN, 

recommends an early release from her agreement which is currently due to end in six 

months. Letter from Richard Hinchman, M.D. dated July 18, 2012. 

7. Dwigans testified that she will continue going to 12 Step meetings in the future 

and PRN considers her to bea model of recovery. 

8. The deficiencies that led to the probation of Dwigans' license involved 

substance abuse. Dwigans' compliance with her probation constitutes evidence that this 

problem has been remedied. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. "The board may withdraw or modify the probation ... if it finds, after a hearing, 

that the deficiency that required disciplinary action has been remedied, or that changed 

circumstances warrant a modification of the order." md. Code § 25-1-9-9(b). 

2. Dwigans' compliance with her probation constitutes evidence that the 

deficiency that required disciplinary action has been remedied. 

2 



(Page 19 of 20> 

ORDER 

Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the BoaTd 

WITHDRAWS the probation on Dwigans' license. 

ORDERED of August, 2012. 

INDiANA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

L. Kelly 
ecutive Director. 

Indiana Professional Licensing Agency 

3 



(Page 20 of 20) 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I that a copy of the "Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order" has been 
duly served upon: 

Janet Dwigans 
6974 W County Road 25 S 

Greencastle, TN 46135 
Service by U.S. Mail 

Darren Covington, Deputy Attorney General 
Office of the Indiana Attorney General 
Indiana Government Center South 
302 West Washington Street, Fifth Floor 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
Service by e-mail 

Date (heg Pachmayr 

Indiana Board of Pharmacy 
Indiana Government Center South 
402 West Washington St., Room W072 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
J. 1t¼fl1¼,. .71 1 

Fax: 317-233-4236 
Email: pla4©pla.in.gov 

Explanatiçn of Service Methods 
Personal : by delivering a true copy of the aforesaid document(s) personally. 
Service by U.S. : by serving a truecopy of the aforesaid document(s) by First Class U.S. Mail, postage prepaid. 
Service by : by sending a true copy of the aforesaid document(s) to the individual's elretronic mail address. 

4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 1) 

Kentucky: Board of Pharmacy - Pharmacy Lookup 

License Verification Details 
Kentucky Board of Pharmacy 
State Office Building Annex, Ste 300 
125 Holmes Street 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

Detail for License Number 016332 
JANET MARIE DWIGANS 

IN 46135- 

License Information 
Expiration Date: 2/28/2014 
Effective Date: 1/8/2013 
Status of License: Active 
Preceptor: 
Board Action: No 
Case Number(s): 
The Kentucky Board of Pharmacy website is 
considered primary source verification and 
is actually the preferred method of 
licensure verification. Both JCAHO and the 
Cabinet for Health and Family Services, 
Office of the Inspector General, consider 
verification through the website as 
evidence of licensure. 

https://secure .kentucky.gov/pharmacy/ljcenselookup/Default.aspx 7/18/2013 

Page 1 of 1 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 2 of 7) 

7/14/13 

20CB38D8.4FA5.461 4-981 B-21 CAA3CF4O82- 

PHARMACiST'S 

Duplicate Copy by Thempeutic Center, Jeff M. Jellin, Pharm.D., Editor 
3120W. March Lane, Stocidon, CA 95219 

Email: CE@PLetter.com 
Ph (209) 472-2240, Fax (209) 472-2249 

Statement of Credit 

Pharmacist's LetterlFherapeutic Research Center confirms that 

Janet Dwigans 
on July 8, 2013 successfully completed the 

Pharmacist's Letter knowledge-based Continuing Education Course 
11,No. 314 

Medication Safety: Strategies for Preventing Medication Errors on 7/8/20 13. 
CE Broker 

ACPE Universal Program #0422-0000-11-31 4-H05-P and is awarded: 
2.00 contact hours of credit or (0.2 CEU's). 

CE Broker# 20-327873, FL Board approved on 10/11/2011 

Tony R. Martin, Pharm.D., MBA July 14, 2013 

This course is sponsored by 
Pharmacist's Letter, Stockton CA 95219 
TEL: 209/472-2240 FAX: 209/472-2249 

CE Broker Provider # 50-2973 

Statement of Credit for: 
Janet Dwigans 
Parallon Supply Chain Sertnces 

VA 

112 



(Page 3 of 7) 

7/14113 Pharmacists Letter 

Statement of Credit 
Print 

Janet Dwigans PHARMACIST'S 

aose Window 

With this Statement of Credit Pharmocists Letter Therapeutic Research Center confirms that 
Janet Dwigans has successfullycompleted the courses below: 

State: Indiana 

Renewal Period: 1/1/2012 - 12/31/2013 1 f485627-20d4-4e 1 c-87f4-6972520562c0 

Course Title & CE Provider Date Contact Requirements 
Completed Hours Met 

Emerging Developments in Drug Therapy and Implementation into 
Patient Care December 2011 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-1 1-012-H01-P 05/01/12 1.00 General CE 
Knowledge-based CE 
486c26ec-bl 81 -4e30-ba25-7d9430fdff50 (pnnted previously) 

Emerging Developments in Drug Therapyand Implementation into 
Patient Care January 2012 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-12-001-H01-P 05/01/12 1.00 General CE 
Knowledge-based CE 
486c26ec-b 181 -7d9430fdff50 (printed previously) 

Emerging Developments in Drug Therapy and Implementation into 
Patient Care February 2012 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-1 2-002-HOl -P 06/13/12 1.00 General CE 
Knowledge-based CE 
486c26ec-bl 81 -4e30-ba25-7d9430fdff50 (printed previously) 

Emerging Developments in Drug Therapyand Implementation into 
Patient Care May2012 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-12-005-H01-P 09/02/12 1.00 General CE 
ISI I'.Jfl CIJ .aI_ 

486c26ec-bl 81 -4e30-ba25-7d9430fdff50 (printed previously) 

Emerging Developments in Drug Therapy and Implementation into 
Patient Care June 2012 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-12-006-H01-P 09/02/12 1.00 General CE 
Knowledge-based CE 
486c26ec-bl 81 -4e30-ba25-7d9430fdff50 (printed previously) 

Emerging Developments in Drug Therapy and Implementation into 
Patient Care July 2012 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-12-007-H01-P 09/02/12 1.00 General CE 
Knowledge-based CE 
486c26ec-b 181 -4e30-ba25-7d94301dff50 (printed previously) 

Emerging Developments in Drug Therapyand Implementation into 
Patient Care August 2012 

0422-0000-12-008-HO1-P 09/02/12 1.00 General CE 
Knowledge-based CE 
486c26ec-bl 81 -4e30-ba25-7d9430fdff50 (printed previously) 

Emerging Developments in Drug Therapy and Implementation into 
Patient Care September 2012 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-12-009-H01-P 09/02/12 1.00 General CE 
Knowledge-based CE 
486c26ec-bl 81 -4e30-ba25-7d9430fdff50 (printed previously) 

Medication Errors in Specific Situations and Populations 
PCPE#:0422-0000-11-313-H05-P 01/22/13 1.00 General CE 
Knowledge-based CE 
cdd7c0bc-670a-4e 1 d-86f6-abaef7cdbb50 (printed previously) 

1/2 



(Page 4 of 7) 

7/14/13 Letter 

— Considerations for Mult Patients Part 1: Patient Specific 
Factors 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-10-2094-101-P 02/03/13 1.00 General CE 
Knowledge-based CE 
486c26ec-b 181 -4e30-ba25-7d9430fdff50 (printed previously) 
Pediathc Pharmacy Practice: An Introduction for Pharmacists 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-11 -P 

02/15/13 1.00 General CE Knowledge-based CE 
486c26ec-b 181 -4e30-ba25-7d9430fdff50 (printed previously) 
Medication Safety: Strategies for Medication Errors 05-P 

07/08/13 2.00 General CE Knowledge-based CE 
20cb38d8-4fa5-461 4-981 b-2 1 caa3cf4O82 (printed previously) 

End of Life Care and Pain Management 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-12-214-H01-P 

07/14/13 2.00 General CE Knowledge-based CE 
1 f485627-20d4-4e1 c-87f4-6972520562c0 

and is awarded 15.00 total Contact Hours 

Tony R. Marlin, PharmD, MBA July 14, 2013 

These courses are sponsored by 
Pharmacist's Letter, 3120 W. March Lane, Stockton, CA 95219 

TEL: (209) 472-2240 FAX: (209) 472-2249 

Print 

I 
aose Window 1 

- 

212 



5 of 7) 

7/14/13 i 
C 

Letter 

Janet Dwigans 

VA 
Oose Window 

PHARMACIST'S 

CE-in-the-Letter May2009 

ACPE#: 0422-0000-09-005-H01-P 

Indiana 

Renewal Period: 111/2010 - 12131/2011 

Course Title & CE Provider Date 
Completed 

Hours Requirements 
Met 

CE-in-the-Letter Feb 2009 
Lottor 01120/1-0--- 1.00 Conorul CE 

ACPE#: 0422-0000-09-002-F-101-P 

CE-in-the-Letter Mar 2009 
/20/10 1.00 Conoral CE_ 1P 

CE-in-the-Letter Apr 2009 
'..ctL 01/20/10 1.00 

ACPE#: 0422-0000-09-004-H01-P 

CE-in-the-Letter Jun 2009 

22-0000-09-006-H01-P 

— 
General CE 01/20/10 1.00 

CE-in-the-L 
Phajmaci&tsLt3Uer 01/20/10 1.00 General CE 
ACPE#: 

I I 

CE-in-the-Letter Aug 
02/04/10 1.00 General CE • 

PCPE#: 0422-0000-09-008-HOl -P 

CE-i n-the-Letter Sep 2009 
Letter 07/04/10 1.00 General CE_ 

ACPE#: 0422-0000-09-009-H01-P 
CE-in-the-Letter Oct 2009 

Letter 1.00 
ACPE#: 0422-00009-010-H01-P 
CE-in-the-Letter Nov2009 

General CE 02/04/10 1.00 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-09-011 -HOl -P 

Safe Use of Opiates - Pharmacists 
rtCA c. 
ACPE#:ACPE UPN:0456-0000-10-001-H05-P 

04/01/10 1.00 General CE 

Edit / Delete 

CE-in-the-Letter Dec 2009 
08/29/1 O .00 

CE-in-the-Letter Jan 2010 
CE — 

ACPE#: -0000-10-001-H01-P 
CE-in-the-Letter Feb 2010 

08/29/10 1.00 General CE 
AC PE#: 0422-0000-1 0-002-HO 1-P 

CE-in-the-Letter 
Pharmacisrs Letter 08/29/10 1.00 General CE 

1/3 



(Page 6 of 7) 

CE-in-the-Letter Dec 2010 
Pharmacisrs Letter 

7/14/13 

ACPE#: 0422-0000-1 O-003-H01-P 

Letter 

CE-in-the-Letter May2010 

ACPE#: 0422-0000-10-005-HO 1-P 
08129110 1.00 

., 
General CE 

-LetterApr20lO 
Letter .------—-—— 

ACPE#: 0422-0000-10-004-HO 1-P 
—U81297Ttr 1.00 

._._— 
General CE 

CE-in-the-Letter Jun 2010 

ACPE#: 0422-0000-10-006-HO 1-P 

ACPE#: 0422-0000-1 0-007-HO 1-P 

08/29110 1.00 General CE 

General CE 08/29/10 1.00 

Medication Management Standards for the Fronthne 
Pharmacist 
HCA Inc. 
ACPE#: ACPE UPN: 0456-000-1 1-006-H04-P 
Edit/Delete 

05/13/11 1.00 General CE 

Pharmacy& Core Measures: Core Measure 3.3 
Specefication Up 
HCAinc. 
ACPE#: ACPE UPN: 0456-0000-1 1-005-h04-P 
Edit I Delete 

06/15/11 1.00 General CE 

CE-in-the-Letter Aug 2010 
Letter 

PCPE#: 0422-0000-10-008-HO 1-P 
06/16/11 1.00 General CE 

CE-in-the-Letter Sep 2010 
Pharrnacisrs Letter 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-1 0-009-HOl -P 

06/16/11 1.00 General CE 

CE-in-the-Letter Oct 2010 
PharmacisVs Letter 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-10-01 O-HO1-P 

06/16/11 1.00 General CE 

flflAA 0 

Autibiogra 
HCAlnc. 
ACPE#: ACPE U PN: 0456-0000-1 0-HOl -P 
Edit / Delete 

08/12/11 1.00 General CE 

CE-in-the-Letter Jul 2011 
PharmacisVs Letter 
PCPE#: 0422-0000-1 1-007-H01-P 

12/23/11 1.00 General CE 

CE-in-the-Letter Aug 2011 
Pharmacisrs Letter 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-11-008-HO 1-P 

12/23/11 1.00 General CE 

CE-in-the-Letter Oct 2011 

Pharmacist's Letter 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-1 1-01O-HO1-P 

I 2I2311 1 1.00 General CE 

CE-in-the-Letter Sep 2011 
Pharmacisrs Letter 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-1 1-009-H01-P 

12/23/11 1.00 General CE 

CE-in-the-Letter Nov2011 
Pharmacist's Letter 
ACPE#: 0422-0000-11-01 1-H0l-P 

12(23/11 1.00 General CE 

CE-in-the-Letter Nov2010 
Letter 

ACPE#: 0422-0000-10-01 1-HO1-P 
12/23/11 1.00 General CE 

12/23/11 1.00 General CE 

2/3 







 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


fr. 

F 
E 

HEALTH 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

P.O. Box 6320 • Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 
Phone: (850) 245-4292 

www.doh . state.fl . us/mqa/pharmaCy 

ITEM #2- PHARMACIST ENDORSEMENT APPLICATION 
FEE: $295.00 

Please print or type legibly 

1. Biographical Data 
Middle Name 

Last Name First Name 

- y 
Street Address (ML — Mailing Address) ' City 

j5/j(o 
Work Address (PL — Practice Location) City 

State Zip 

State Zip 

Home Phone Number Business Phone Number E-Mail Address 

- 
Date of Birth Place of Birth 

01/ 
2. Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Emp'oyee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not in any way your candidacy for licensure. 

SEX: 0 Male 
RACE: 12"Caucasian 0 Black DHispar'iic 0 Ajian 0 Native American 0 Other 

3. Have you ever changed your name through arriag r through action of a court or have you ever 

been known by any other name? If yes, list na and date(s) of the changes below. Use a 

separate sheet. if necessary. 

YesV" No 

NAME DATE 

4. Name of university, college or school of pharmacy attended: 

5. Date Of Graduation 6. Type Of Degréé Earned 7. ever been licensed as an 
intern in Florida? 

D 
Yes____ No 7 
Intern License Number: 

AUG 1 

DH-MQA 100, 02109 

Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 
Page 2 of 6 

Florida Board C 



8. Please indicate the date you successfully completed the NAPLEX . 
Date 

9. Would you be willing to provide health services in special needs shelters or to help staff disaster 
medical teams during times of emergency or major ? 
Yes V No 

10. Method of application - Please select one of the methods of application listed below; you must submit 
proof that the requirement you choose has been met. 

A. Two years of active practice within two (2) of the last five (5) years. 

B. Successful completion of an internship within the immediately preceding two (2) years. 

PLEASE NOTE: If you have been licensed in another state in excess of 2 years from the date of your 
application you must choose A and have completed 30 hours of continuing education in the previous two (2) 
calendar years. If you choose "B" your internship date will be determined by the Board based on your 
graduation date, unless the state board of pharmacy where your hours were earned submits the certification of 
intern hours earned in that state within the preceding two (2) years. 
11. List two years work experience if you are applying under IOA Note: you must submit one (11 
Internship or Work Experience Form — Form B (Item #4) for each employer listed below. Use a 
separate sheet, if necessary. List internship experience if you are applying under lOB. 
Dates Employer Location Intern Or Pharmacy 

Experience 
Total Hours 

12. List all jurisdictions in which you have been licensed as a pharmacist. Note: you must submit one 1) Verification Form (Item #5) for each listed below. Use a seDarate sheet, if . 
State or U.S. Jurisdiction License Number - Date Issued 

13. Special Testing Accommodations — please indicate if you require special testing accommodations due 
to a disability, or if you have a religious conflict with the scheduled examination date. If yes. complete the 
Request for an Application for Testing Accommodations (item #6) and submit it to Testing Services. 
You may also contact Testing Services by telephone (850) 245-4252 for detailed information and an 
application. All requests must be writing and include supporting . 
Yes No 

14. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendre, or no contest, to a crime in any jurisdiction other than a mjnor traffic offense? 
Yes No 
(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

Page 3 of 6 



19. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 
in this state or any other state or U.S.prisdiction? 

Yes No V 
20. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
jurisdiction when disciplinary action 

Yes No 

21. Are you presently being investigateçl or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 
817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 
control) or a similar felony offense(s) ia-another state or jurisdiction? (If no, do not answer 23 ) 
Yes No 

23. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 
the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes___ No___ /L9/ñ 
23a. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Sectipn 893.13(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes_______ No AJ/,4— 
23b. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 
it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No______ 

23c. If "yes" to 22, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No______ 

24. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes______ No V 
24a. If "yes" to 24, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 
and any subsequent period of such conviction or plea ? 
Yes____ No____ 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 5 of 6 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 



Section 456.01 3(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change 
in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place between the initial filing of the application and 
the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the 
basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations they deem appropriate 
and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have 
or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board or any municipal, county, 
state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a 
pharmacists license may be revoked or suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, 
diploma, or in connection with an application for a license or p rmit, as set forth in section 456.01 5(2)(a), / 

NOTE: Please to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 6 of 6 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

25. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.91 3. Florida Statutes? (If no, do noj answer 

25b. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Proaram for the most recent fiy.e years? 

Yes No 
- A) /A- 

26. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no. do not answer 26a and 26b.) 
Yes No 
26a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 
for the most recent five years? 

Yes - No 

26b. Did the termination occur at least years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

Yes______ 

27. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector Generars List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide official ) 

NosY 
28. If "yes" to any of the questions 22 through 26 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled 
in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes______ No N/4- 
All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 16-26, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit 
a certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or 
all If applicable. 



HEALTh 
FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 
Phone: (850) 245-4292 • www.doh. state.fI. us/mqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #3- CERTIFICATE OF PHARMACY EDUCATION (FORM A) 

Christine N. Hinko, PhD 

Print Name 
Executive Associate Dean 
Dean for Student Affairs 

Title 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

Please print or type legibly. 
Part . — To be completed by applicant and forwarded to the College of Pharmacy for completion of 
Part II below. 
Last Name First Name Middle Name 

Maiden Name/Surname Date of Graduation 

Mailing Address City State Zip ,/z 
Part II. — To be completed by an official of the university 
Name of School/College of Pharmacy 

University of Toledo College of Pharmacy and Pharmaceutical Sciences 
Mailing Address City State Zip 
3000 Arlington Ave. Toledo OH 43614 

Type of Degree Awarded Date Degree Awarded Dates of Attendance 

From: 8 /21 / 06 
Doctor of Pharmacy 5412 

The information recorded above is true and correct according to the official records of this institution. 
Failure to include the school seal may result in a delay in processing the applicant's application. 

Signature 

8—8—13 

Date 

(SCHOOL 
SEAL) 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

Page 1 of 1 

RECE:VIZC 

4UG .1 92013 

of 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


License and Registration Infonnation 
License 

II 
First Issue Date 

H 
Current Issue Dates Expiration Status 

-GRADII 0911812008 
II 

16r2011 
License Type: Intern - Graduate - Renewable Once 

issued: 

RPH.031321 32-1 
H 

09/14/2012 12013 ACTIVE IN RENEWAL 
License Type Pharmacist 
How issued: E - Examination 

Formal Action Information 
No formal action exists. 7 

This data iS an accurate represeatation of infoiir.ation currently maintained by the Ohio State Board of 
Pharmacy as of 813012013. 

This secure online license verification system conforms with The Joint Commissions current policy on "Primary Source Verification". 

This information is otherwise provided as a public service and no user may claim detrimental reijajice 
thereon. 

https ://license.ohio.govtLookup/SearchDetail asp?Contactldnt=3 983 650&Divisionldnt=96 8/30/2013 

Name and Address 
Name 

H 
ROSEMARY MARGARET TECZA RPI-l 

blic Address 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Page 1 of 1 

9E09EF64-2E04-4349-8532-3B2AFADA384A 1000063826 

I 

____ 

Published by Therapeutic Research Center, Jeff M. Jellin, Pharm.D., Editor 
3120W. March Lane, Stockton, CA 95219 

www.pharmaciststetter.com Emai': CE@PLetter.com 
Ph (209) Fax (209) 

Statement of Credit 

Pharmacist's Letter/Therapeutic Research Center confirms that 

Rosemary Tecza 
on March 30, 2013 successfully completed the 

Pharmacist's Letter knowledge-based Continuing Education Course 
Volume l1,No. 314 

Medication Saftty: Strategies for Preventing Medication Errors on 3/30/20 13. 
CE Broker #20-327873 

ACPE Universal Program #0422-0000-11-3 14-H05-P and is awarded: 
2.00 contact hours of credit or (0.2 CEU's). 

CE Broker# 20-327873, FL Board approved on 10/11/2011 

I ,, i\ 

Tony R. Martin, Pharm.D., MBA July 28, 2013 

This course is sponsored by 
Pharmacist's Letter, Stockton CA 95219 
TEL: 209/472-2240 FAX. 209/472-2249 

CE Broker Provider # 50-2973 

Statement of Credit for: 
Rosemary Tecza 
8614 Hartman Road 
Wadsworth, OH 44281 

http ://pharmacistsletter.therapeuticresearch.comlasp/print BK stmtcredit.asp?typez=html&... 7/28/2013 



Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

September 18, 2013 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Sur9eon General & Secretary 

Curtis Michael Drees 
19 Miami Street 
Fort Loramie, OH 45845 

RE: Pharmacy Intern Application 

Dear Mr. Drees: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, October 9, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. The meeting begins at 
1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.floridaspharrnacy.gov/meeting-information/upcoming-meetings/. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

James Cumbie 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 'Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FlorldasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmerjtofHealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTh 

Si 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


!IIEALTK 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
P.0. Box 6320 • Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

Phone: 850-245-4292 
www.doh.state.fl.us/pharmacy/drugs 

ITEM #2 — PHARMACY INTERN APPLICATION 
FOR U.S. PHARMACY STUDENTS/GRADUTES 

Rule 64B16-26.400(1), Florida Administrative Code, states, A pharmacy intern is required to be 

registered with the Department of Health as an intern before being employed as in intern in a pharmacy 
in Florida. Intern certificates issued by the Florida Board of Pharmacy (the board) are valid for the State 
of Florida ONLY and must be returned to the board after an intern has become a Registered Pharmacist 
in the State of Florida. Applicants must complete the information below and forward the application to the 

College of Pharmacy to be completed by the Dean and returned to the address above. 

Please print or type legibly. 

Last Name First Name Middle Name 

Home Address (Mailing Address — ML) City 
19. 

State 
OH 

Zip 

Work Address (Practice Location — PL) City State Zip — 
Current Phone Number I 

Home Phone Number Date of Birth 
L 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 

Page 2 of 11 

1. Biographical Information 

2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the foHowing information as part of your 
voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 
43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 
does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 
SEX: 1 Female 
RACE: 0 Black OHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American D Other 

3. If known, indicate the name and address of the pharmacy where you will intern in . 
4. Have you ever applied to take the Florida pharmacist examination? If yes, please indicate the date. 

Yes - No Date 

Yes 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendere, or no contest, to a 

crime in anyjurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

No 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record 

of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 



10. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 
in this state or any other state? 

Yes No 

11. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No 

12. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 
817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 
control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If you responded "no", skip to 
#14.) 

Yes No 

13a. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 
the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subseq uent probation? 

Yes No 

13b. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida . 
13c. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 
it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No 

13d. If "yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395.1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? (If no do not answer 14a.) 

Yes No 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 4 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



14a. If "yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 

and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes No 

15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15a.) 

Yes No 

15a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 

Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 

state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 

(If no, do not answer 16a and 16b.) 

Yes No 

16a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 

for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

17. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide 

Yes 

18. If "yes" to any of the questions 13 through 17 above, on or before July 1,2009, were you enrolled 
in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licen sure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes_______ No______ 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 5-18, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit a 

certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all 

it applicable. 

7-1-13 
(SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT) (DATE) 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 5 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



TO BE COMPLETED BY DEAN OF COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 

This is to certify that the above named applicant is entered into the professional curriculum of the University of Toledo College of , asof ;andisagraduate 
(NAME OF SCHOOL) (DATE) 

of said professional curriculum as of 5—4—14 

(DATE) 
Christine_N._Hinko,_PhD 

(PRINT NAME OF DEAN) 

SEAL) 
(SIGNATURE OF DEAN) 
7-22—13 

- (DATE) 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 6 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Name and Address 

L 
Name IICURTIS MIC HAEL DREES 

Public Address OH 

Expiration Date Status 

j: 1 [ 09/15/2014 
II 

ACTIVE 

Formal Action Information 
No formal action exists. 

This data is an accurate representation of information currently maintained by the Ohio State Board of 
Pharmacy as of 812912013. 

This secure online !icense verification system conforms with The Joint Commissions current policy on 
"Primary Source Verification". 

This information is otheiwise provided as a public service and no user may claim detrimental reliance 
thereon. 

httns i/license oh in ii asn?Cnnta.ctjdnt X/29120 13 

V VY L)%I1 k L L 

OH 
r r c 

License and Registration Information 
License First Issue Date Current Issue Date 

INT.0600951 5 09/23/2010 

License Type: Pharmacy Intern 
How issued: 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html




 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 28> 

VL: 91206B720 
ITEM #2 - Pharmacy Technician Registration 

FEE: $105.00 
Please print or type legibly 

1. Biographical data 

Last name First name Middle name 

Street address (ML — Mailing Location) City State Zip 

FL 
Work address (PL — Practice Location) 
(If you are not employed, please list your mailing address 

below). If you have multiple practice locations, please 
submit on an additional sheet, attach with application. 

City State Zip 

ç73L (j&rk 1L 

Home phone number Business phone number Date of birth 

I 

E-mail address 

Would you be willing to provide health services in 
special needs shelters or to help staff disaster medical 
assistance teams during times of emergency or major 
disasters? 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Name Date 

DH-MQA PHi 183, 09109 

Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 
Page 2 of 6 

FLORIDA OF 

HEALT 
FLORIDA BOARD' 
P.O. Box 6320 • Tat 

Phone: (850) 
http://wwwdoh.stati 

10: 51517 

105.00 
Type: F 

EIT: 3023522 

2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 

SEX: 0 Female 

RACE: El Black DHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 

3. Have you ever changed your name through marriage or through action of a court or have you ever 

been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the change(s) below. Use a 

separate sheet, if necessary. 



(Page 5 of 28) 

4. Have you completed a board approved training course according to Rule 64B16-26.351 (3), ? 
Yes No 

________ 

If yes, include a copy of your completed course certificate. 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob , or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

Yes_____ No_ 

(You must Include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you 

would not have a record of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor 

traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

6. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacy technician registration, or any other 

professional license you may have in this state or any other state? 

Yes 7 No 

7. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another jurisdiction 

when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes 7 No 

8. Are you presently under investigation or is any disciplinary action pending against ? 
Yes No 

DH-MQA PH1183, 09/09 

Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 
Page 3 of 6 



(Page 7 of 28) 

13. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 817, 

F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and control) or 

a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If you responded "no", skip to ) 
Yes No 

I 3a. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 
date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent ? 

Yes No 

13b. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida Statutes). 

Yes No 

13c. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has it 
been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No 

13d. If "yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No______ 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 
U.S.C. ss. 1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes______ No______ 

14a. If "yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the 
sentence and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes_______ No______ 

15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.91 3, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15a.) 

Yes No 

15a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

DH-MQA PH1183, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 5 of6 



(Page 8 of 28) 

Section 456.013(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect 

any material change in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place 
between the initial filing of the application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might 

affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements 
shall form the basis of my application and 1 do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any 
investigations they deem appropriate and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize 

them to furnish any information they may have or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, 

institution, association, board or any municipal, county, state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I 

understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a pharmacy technician registration may be 

revoked or suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other 

thing, with an application for a license or permit, as set forth in section 456.015(2)(a), F.S. 

Signature 

DH-MQA PHI 183, 09/09 

Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Date 

Page 6 of 6 

Yes No 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 

state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? (If 

no, do not answer 16a and 16b.) 

Yes No 

16a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program for 
the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this application? 

Yes No 

17.Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
Office of Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and ? 
Yes______ No______ 

18. If "yes" to any of the questions l3through 17 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you 
enrolled in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking 
licensure that was recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of 
Health? (If "yes", please provide official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes______ No______ 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If you 
answer "yes" to any questions in 5-16b, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit a 

certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all if 
applicable. 



C
er

tif
ic

at
e_

Q
 f C

om
pl

et
io

n 

F
or

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

 c
br

np
le

tin
g 

an
d 

pa
ss

in
g 

Pa
ss

A
ss

ur
ed

's
 P

ha
rm

ac
y 

T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

T
ra

in
in

g 
C

ou
rs

e 
an

d 
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Fl
or

id
a 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
Ph

ar
m

ac
y 

ru
le

s 
fo

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 te

ch
ni

ci
an

s.
 

Pa
ss

A
ss

ur
ec

i 
an

d 
th

e 
Fl

or
id

a 
Ph

ar
m

ac
y 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

pr
es

en
ts

 th
is

 a
w

ar
d 

to
 

Jo
sh

ua
 K

la
si

ns
ki

 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 (

Li
ce

ns
ed

 
S

ig
na

tu
re

 

M
ay

25
,2

01
3 

F
P

hA
 S

ig
na

tu
re

 
D

at
e 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

P
as

sA
ss

ur
ed

, L
L

C
 

15
04

 W
es

t P
ar

k 
A

ve
nu

e 
T

ra
in

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

 L
ic

en
se

 N
um

be
r 

O
ra

ng
e,

 T
X

 7
76

30
 

N
am

e 
of

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 B

as
ed

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

 P
ha

rm
ac

y 

A
dd

re
ss

 

fL
 

C
ity

 
S

ta
te

 
Z

ip
 

M
ay

 2
5,

 2
01

3 

D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 19 of 28) 

Order No. 

FiLED DATE 
Department of Hea'th 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF MEDICINE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

vs. 
DOH CASE 2012—04092 
LICENSE NO.: PA9105912 

JOSHUA KLASINSKI, P.A., 

Respondent. 

_________________________________________________/ 

FINAL ORDER 

THIS CAUSE came before the BOARD OF MEDICINE (Board) 

pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, on 

February 1, 2013, in Jacksonville, Florida, for the purpose of 

considering a Settlement Agreement (attached hereto as Exhibit 

A) entered into between the parties in this cause. Upon 

of the Settlement Agreement, the documents 

submitted in support thereof, the arguments of the parties, and 

being otherwise full advised in the premises, the Board rejected 

the Settlement Agreement and offered a Counter Settlement 

Agreement which Respondent was given 7 days to accept. By 

letter dated February 21, 2013, Respondent timely accepted the 

Board's Counter Settlement Agreement. The Counter Settlement 

Agreement incorporates the original Settlement Agreement with 

the following amendments: 



(Page 20 of 28) 

1. The costs set forth in Paragraph 3 of the Stipulated 

Disposition shall be set at $1,244.10. 

2. The suspension set forth in Paragraph 6 of the 

Stipulated Disposition shall be amended to require Respondent to 

be SUSPENDED until such time as he undergoes an evaluation by 

the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) and personally appears 

before the Board with said evaluation and the Board determines 

that Respondent is safe to practice medicine with reasonable 

skill and safety. The Board retains jurisdiction in this matter 

to impose terms and conditions of practice based upon the 

recommendations of Respondent's PRN evaluation, including but 

not limited to a term of probation, at the time Respondent's 

license to practice medicine is 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Settlement 

Agreement as submitted be and is hereby approved and adopted in 

toto and incorporated herein by reference with the amendments 

set forth above. Accordingly, the parties shall adhere to and 

abide by all the terms and conditions of the Settlement 

Agreement as amended. 

This Final Order shall take effect upon being filed with 

iThe Clerk cf the of 



(Page 21 of 28) 

DONE AND ORDERED this_____________ day of 

2013. 

BOARD OF MEDICINE 

Director 
For Zachariah P. Zachariah, M.D., Chair 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Final Order has been provided by Certified Mail to 

JOSHUA KLASINSKI, ?.A., 4475 Stream5ide Court, Sarasota, Florida 

34238; and 3211 Beneva Road, Unit 102, Sarasota, Florida 34232; 

by email to the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) at 

and by interoffice delivery to Sharmin Hibbert, 

Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65, 

Tallahassee, Jlorida 32399—3253 this day of 

2013. 

32)! 

lOin 0002 2383 230i 

_____ 

OSilifly 

L. 
7012 1010 0002 



(Page 1 of 20) 

FILED 
OF HEALTH 

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPUTY CLERK 

BOARD OF MEDICINE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

vs. 

DON CASE NO.: 2012-04092 
LICENSE NO.: PA9105912 

JOSHUA KLASINSKI, P.A., 

Respondent. 

_____________________________________________/ 

ORDER 

THIS CAUSE came before the BOARD OF MEDICINE (Board) 

pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, on 

February 1, 2013, in Jacksonville, Florida, for the purpose of 

considering a Settlement Agreement (attached hereto as Exhibit 

A) entered into between the parties in this cause. Upon 

consideration of the Settlement Agreement, the documents 

submitted in support thereot, the arguments of the parties, and 

being otherwise full advised in the premises, the Board rejected 

the Settlement Agreement and offered a Counter Settlement 

Agreement which Respondent was given 7 days to accept. The 

Counter Settlement Agreement incorporates the original 

Settlement Agreement with the following amendments: 

1. The costs set forth in Paragraph 3 of the Stipulated 

Disposition shall be set at $1,244.10. 



(Page 2 of 20) 

2. The suspension set forth in Paragraph of the 

Stipulated Disposition shall be amended to require Respondent to 

be SUSPENDED until such time as he undergoes an evaluation by 

the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) and personally appears 

before the Board with said evaluation and the Board determines 

that Respondent is safe to practice medicine with reasonable 

skill and safety. The Board retains jurisdiction in this matter 

to impose terms and conditions of practice based upon the 

recommendations of Respondent's PRN evaluation, including but 

not limited to a term of probation, at the time Respondent's 

license to practice medicine is reinstated. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Settlement 

Agreement as submitted is rejected and Respondent shall have 7 

days from the date this Order is filed to accept the Board's 

Counter Settlement Agreement. Acceptance of said Counter 

Settlement Agreement shall be made in writing Edward A. 

Tellechea, Chief Assistant Attorney General, PL-0l, The Capitol, 

Tallahassee, Plorida 32399-1050; or emailed to 

Ed . 
Thic Order shall take effect upon being filed with the 

Clerk of the Department of Health. 



(Page 3 of 20) 

DONE AND ORDERED this__________ day of 
2013. 

RD OF MEDICINE 

J.D.,, Executive Director 
For Zachariah P. Zachariah, M.D., Chair 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Order has been provided by U.S. Mail to JOSHUA 

KLASINSKI, P.A., 4475 Streamside Court, Sarasota, Florida 34238; 

and 3211 Beneva Road, Unit 102, Sarasota, Florida 34232; by 

email to the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) at 

and by interoffice delivery to Sharmin Hibbert, 

Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C—65, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253 this day of 

2013. 

Deputy Agency ClerE 



(Page 4 of 20> 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DFPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEAlTH, 

Petitioner, 

V. DOH Case No. 2012-04092 

JOSHUA KLASINSKI, P.A., 

Respondent, j 
AGREEMENT 

Joshua Kiasinski, P.A., referred to as the and the 

of Health, referred to as 1 stipulate and agree to the foliowIn4 

Agreement and to the entry of a Final Order of the Board of Medicine, referred 

as 'Board,' incorporating the Stipulated Facts and Stipulated Disposition in 

matter. 

Petitioner the state agency charged with regulating the practie u! 

physician assistance pursuant to Section Florida Statutes, and Chapter 

Florida Statutes, and Chapter 458, Florida Statutes. 

FACTS 

1. At afl times material hereto, Respondent was a licensed physician 

assistant in the State of Florida having been issued license number PA 91059t2 

P A ?Oi 04091 



(Page 5 of 20) 

2. The Department charged Respondent with an Administrttivc 

Complaint that was filed and properly served upon Respondent witn violations of 

Chapter 158, Florida Statutes, and the rules adopted pursuant thereto. A true lvi 
cci rect copy of the Administrative Complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

3. Respondent neither admits nor denies the allegations of tact contained 

in the Administrative Complaint for purposes of these proceedings only. QF LAW 

Respondent admits that, in his capacity as a licensed physiLidi 

assistant, he is subject to the provisions of Chapters 456 and 458, Florida Statutes 

and the jurisdiction of the Department and the Board. 

2. Respondent admits that the facts alleged in the Admlnls(rdtvp 

Complaint, if proven, would constitute violations of Chapter 158, Florida Statutes, 

as alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

3. Respondent agrees that the Stipulated Disposition in this case is tair. 

appropriate and acceptable to Respondent. 

STIPULATED DISPOSITION 

1. Reprimand The Board shall reprimand the license of Respondent 

2. Fine •. The Board of Medicine shall impose an administrative f}ne of tour 

thousand dollars ($4,000.00) against the license of Respondent, to be paid by 

2 ' A Lsic p112 D4F)i? 



(Page 6 of 20> 

Respondent to Payments, Department of Health, Compliance Management Unit, C 16, 

P.O. Box 6320, Tallahassee, ft 32314-6320, within thirty-days (30) from the date ot tiiinq 

of the Final Order accepting this AD tines shall be paid by cash heck 

The Board office does not have the authority to change the terms of 

payment of any fine èmposed by the Board. 

RESPONDENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE TIMELY PAYMENT OF THU 

FINE IS HIS/HER LEGAL OBLIGATION AND RESPONSIBflIry AND 

RESPONDENT AGREES TO CEASE PRACTICING IF THE FINE IS NOT PAID 

AS AGREED TO IN THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, SPECIfICALLy: IF 

WITHIN 45 DAYS OF THE DATE OF FILING OF THE FINAL ORDER, 

RESPONDENT HAS NOT RECEIVED WRITTEN CONFIRMATION THAT T1* 

FULL AMOUNT OF THE FINE HAS BEEN RECEIVED BY BOARD OFFiCE, 

RESPONDENT AGREES TO CEASE PRACTICE UNTIL SUCH WRI1IEN 

CONFIRMATION IS RECEIVED RY SPONDENT FROM THE BOARD, 

3. of costs - Pursuant to Section 156.072, Floriia 

Statutes, Respondent agrees to pay the Department for any costs incurred ,n the 

lnveshgation and prosecution of this case. Such costs exclude the costs of 

obtaining supervision or monitoring of the practice, the cost of quality assurance 

reviews, and the Board's administrative cost directly associated with Respondent's 

probation, if any. the agreed upon amount of Department costs to be paid in this 

case is currently one thousand eIght dollars and fifty-lout cents 

3 
KJs.in,kt, Nvmbrr 



(Page 7 of 20> 

8 :' — 
—' 

($1, 008.54), but shall not exceed two thousand five hundred eight 

dollars and fifty-four cents Respondent ll pay costs to 

Payments, Department ot Health, Comphance Management Unit, Btn C—76, P 0 BOX 

6320, Tallahassee, l within thirty-days (30) from the date of filiriq ot 

the Final Order in this cause. Aticosts shaH be paid by cashiers check or 

Any post-Board costs, such as the costs associated with probation, 

ore not included in this dgreement. 

RESPONDENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE TIMELY PAYMENT OF THL 

COSTS IS HiS/HER LEGAL OBLIGATION AND 'ry AND 

RESPONDENT AGREES TO CEASE PRACTICING IF THE COSTS ARE NOT PAID 

AS AGREED TO IN THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, SPECIFICALLY: IF 

WITHiN 45 
DAYS OF THE DATE OF FILING OF THE FINAL ORDER, 

RESPONDENT HAS NOT RECEiVED WRIUEN CONFIRMATION THAT THE HiLL 

AMOUNT OF THE COSTS NOTED ABOVE HAS BEEN RECEIVED BY THE BOARD 

OFFICE, RESPONDENT AGREES TO CEASE PRACTICE UNTIL SUCH WRITTEN 

CONFIRMATION IS RECEIVED BY RESPONDENT FROM THE BOARD. 

1. Conthuiing Education "Risk 

Respondent may satisfy this requirement by either completing Itve (5) hours 

Continuing Medical In "Risk Management" within one (1) year of the ddte 

of filing of the hnal Order. if Respondent chooses to meet this requirement 

through Continuing Medical Fducation, Respondent shall first submit. 

4 
P A 



(Page 8 of 20> 

request to the Probation Committee for approval of the course prior to completion 

of said continuing medical education course(s). 

Respondent may also satisfy the requirement for completing (5) fIve hours ci 

continuing medical education in risk management by attending one full clay or eight (8) 1 whichever is more, of hearings at a regular meeting of the Board of 

Medicine. In order to receive such credit, Respondent must sign in with the Executiv 

Director of the Board tefore the meeting day begins, Respondent must remain in 

continuous attendance during the full day or eight (8) hours of disciplinary heanrigs. 

wnichever is more, arid Respondent must sign out with the Executive Director (>1 thn 

l3oord at the end of the meeting day or at such other earlier time as aufirmdtlvety 

authorized by the Board. Respondent may not receive continuing medical educdtiorl 

credit in risk management for attending the disdpfinary hearings portion of a 

meeting untess, the Respondent is attending the disciplinary hearings port1on for thr 

sole purpose of obtaining the continuing medical education credit in nsk management. 

The Respondent may not reelve such credit Fl at the 8oard meeting for any 

other purpose, such as pending action against 's medical license. 

S. ol 

practice is permanently restricted in that Respondent 

may riot examine or treat female patients outside the presence of a FlorIdd 

licensed health care provider who shall maintain a log of each such patient contact 

with said log immediately available to a Department inspector upon request. 

P A .-_r 4-Q4{J92 



(Page 9 of 20) 

5. 

(A) Respondent's license shall be suspended tar a period of three 

3) . The Board reserves jurisdiction in this matter to impose any 

a period of probation, with said terms and conditions 

said probation to he determined by the Boarci at the time of reinstatement 

Respondent's license to practice physician assistance. Respondent shall not pra(ltIu' 

physician assistance in Florida until he petitions the Board for reinstatement, 

before the Board, and has his license reinstated. 

STANDARD PROVISIONS 

1. Appearance Respondent Is required to appear before the Board at 

the meeting of the Board where this Agreement is considered. 

2. No force or effect until final order - It is expressly understooci 

that this Agreement is subject to the approval of the Board and the Departpient 

In this regard, the foregoing paragraphs (and only the foregoing paragraphs) 1 
have no force and effect unless the Board enters a Final Order Incorporating 

terms of this Agreement. 

3 Education - Unless otherwise provided 

written aoreement Respondent shall first submit a written request to the Probahon 

Committee for approval prior to performance of said continuing medical education 

course(s). Respondent shall submit documentation in the form of certified 

of the receipts, vouchers, certiftcates, or other papers, such as physician' 

recognition awards, documenting completion of this methcai course within one ti) 

P A 



(Page 10 of 20) 

year of the date of hhrig of the Final Order in this matter. All such documentation 

shail be sent to the Board of Medicine, regardless of whether some Or any r 
documentation was provided previously during the course of any dudit ot 

discussion with counsel for the Department. These hours shall be in addition to 

those hours required for renewal of licensure. Unless otherwise approved by 

Board, said continuing medical education course(s) shall consist of a formal, 

lecture format. 

4. Atklresses Respondent must keep current residence and pra(tF(.n 

addresses on file with the Board. Respondent shall notify the Board 

(10) ddys of any changes of said addresses. 

5. Future Conduct In the future, Respondent shall not violate Chapter 

456, '158 or 893, Florida Statutes, or the rules promulgated pursuant thereto, or 

any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice or t.he 

ability to practice medicine. Prior to signing this agreement, the Respondent shall reac 

Chapters 456, 458 and 893 and the Rules of the Board of Medicine, at Chapter 64B8, 

Florida Administrative Code. 

6. Violation of terms considered - It is expressly understood that a 

violation of the terms of this Agreement shafl be considered a violation of a I 

Order of the Board, for which disciplinary action may be Initiated pursuant to 

Chapters '156 arid 48, Florida Statutes. 

7. urpose of Agreement - Respondent, for the purpose of avoidinq 

further administrative action with respect to this cause, executes this Agreement. 

P A Nurnijc, 2012 



(Page 11 of 20) 

in this regard, Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

investigative tile matenals concerning Respondent prior to or in conjunction with 

conslderdtlon of the Agreement. Respondent agrees to support this Agreement 

the time it Is presented to the Board and shall offer no evrdence, tesfimorry .r 

argument that disputes contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion ot 

Furthermore! should this Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed 

that presentation to and consideration of this Agreement and other documents dnO 

matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice the Board or any of its 

members Ironi further participation, consideration or resolution of these 

proceedings 

8. No preciusion gf Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Agreement and subsequent Final Order 

Incorporating same will in no way preclude additional proceedings by the Board 

and/or the Department against Respondent for acts or omissions not speciticaily 

set forth in the Administrative Complaint attached as Exhibit A. 

9. Waiver fees and — Upon the Boards adoption 

of this Agreement, the parties hereby agree that with the exception of costs rioted 

above, the parties will bear their own attorney's fees and costs resulting from 

prosecution or defense of this matter. Respondent waives the right to seek any 

attorney's tees or c05t5 from the Department and the Board in connection wIth this 

matter. 

Joihu. .ift.k, P A Cstc 04092 



(Paqe 12 ot 20) 

10. procedural - Upon the Board's adoptinn 

this Agreement, Respondent expressly waives all further procedural steps dnd 

expressly waives all rights to seek judicial review of or to otherwise challenge or 

contest the validity of the Agreement and the Final Order at the hoard 

incorporating said Agreement. 

SIGNED this ) I day 
. , 7017 

Kias,nsk,, P. A. 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNfyQF 

Before me, personafly appeared - , whose 
identity is or by . 

____- 

.. 
. (type of 

and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears 
above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 
2012. 

0 ARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Fxpires: ., . 

tobst3 1 

9 KU A. l(U 



(sage 13 of 20> 

—j' , 
I 

ii i 
APPROVED this of 2011 

H. Frank Farmer, Jr., M.D.. Ph.D. 
State Surgeon General 
Department of Heafth 

By: R. ibbert 
Counsel 

Department of Health 

I0 
Joshua P A Cilo 101 2-040')2 



(Page 1 of 7) 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITION ER, 

DOH CASE NO. 2012-04092 

JOSHUA KLASINSKI, P.A., 

RESPONDENT. 

___________I 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, the Department of Health, by and through 

its undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Medicine against Respondent, Joshua Klasinski, P.A., and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of Physician Assistance pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida 

Statutes; Chapter 456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 458, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed physician assistant in the State of Florida, having been issued 

license number PA 9105912. 



(Page 2 of 7) 

3. Respondent's address of record is 3211 Beneva Road, Unit 102, 

Sarasota, Florida 34232. 

4. On or about February 16, 2012, Patient D.M., a then fifty-eight 

year old female, presented to the Ruskin Health Clinic of Suncoast 

Community Health Center located in Ruskin Florida. 

5. Patient D.M. complained of a hard, brown spot on her left leg, 

self described as knot. The area affected on her leg was approximately 

five inches from her foot. Patient D.M. was concerned about it being a 

blood clot. 

6. Respondent saw Patient D.M. and asserts to have conducted a 

physical examination. 

7. After placing Patient D.M. on the examination table, 

Respondent checked Patient D.M.'s heart and lungs through her clothing. 

Respondent stated he wanted to check Patient D.M.'s heart and lungs 

again. 

8. While using a stethoscope during the examination to check 

Patient D. M .'s heartbeat, Respondent placed the stethoscope under Patient 

D.M.'s bra and asked her to pull her bra up further, to which Patient D.M. 

2 



3 of 7) 

stated she couldn't do. Respondent commented that D.M. had an under 

wire bra on. 

9. During this examination Respondent touched Patient D.M.'s leg 

and her inner thigh in a caressing and inappropriate manner. Respondent 

touched Patient D.M.'s leg with light pressure asking if it hurt, while 

to caress/touch Patient D.M.'s leg up her inner thigh. 

10. Respondent continued rubbing Patient D.M.'s leg up past her 

knee in an inappropriate manner. 

11. Respondent stated to Patient D.M., "I think I have exactly what 

you need" Respondent asked Patient D.M. when the last time she had 

made love was. 

12. Respondent continued the conversation by asking Patient D.M. 

if she lived alone. 

13. Respondent left the examination room to print out a 

prescription and had the medical assistant return with the prescription. 

14. Respondent came in before Patient D.M. left and apologized for 

his conduct stating, "I know I was out of line." 

15. On or about March 16, 2012, Patient D.M. reported the incident 

to administrative staff of the clinic while asking to be transferred to another 

3 



(Page of 7) 

provider. Patient D.M. asserts that she felt violated and uncomfortable 

throughout the course of this visit. 

16. Respondent later came in, after seeing Patient D.M., and 

admitted to his behavior and actions involving Patient D.M. Respondent 

asserts that it was motivated by lust. Respondent was terminated from the 

fad lily. 

Section 458.347(7)(g), Florida Statutes (2011), provides that 

the Boarc of Medicine may impose penalties authorized under sections 

456.072 and 458.331(2), Florida Statutes, upon a physician assistant if the 

physician assistant has been found guilty of or is being investigated for any 

act that constitutes a violation of Chapter 458 or Chapter 456. 

18. Section 456.072(1)(v), Florida Statutes (2011), subjects a 

licensee to discipline, including suspension or restriction of license, for 

engaging or attempting to engage in sexual misconduct as defined and 

prohibited in Section 456.063(1), Florida Statutes. 

19. Section 456.063(1), Florida Statutes (2011), defines sexual 

misconduct in the practice of a health care profession as a violation of the 

professional relationship through which the health care practitioner uses 

such to engage or attempt to engage the patient or client, or 

4 



(Page 5 of 7) 

an immediate family member, guardian, or representative of the patient or 

client in, or to induce or attempt to induce such person to engage in, 

verbal or physical sexual activity outside the scope of the professional 

practice of such health care profession. Sexual misconduct in the practice 

of a health care profession is prohibited. 

20. Respondent engaged or induced, or attempted to engage or 

induce Patient D.M. in verbal and/or physical sexual activity that included 

one or more of the following: inappropriate touching, verbal activity in the 

form of sexually explicit comments; both of these actions are outside the 

scope of the professional practice of physician assistance, in violation of 

Section 456.072(1)(v), Florida Statutes (2011), which prohibits sexual 

misconduct. 

21. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

456.072(1)(v), Florida Statutes (2011) by engaging in sexual misconduct 

with Patient D.M. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Medicine enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

5 



(Page 6 of 7) 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

_______ 

day of , 2012. 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, 
State Surgeon General 
Florida pepatlçnent of Health / 

of Health 

Assistatit Counsel 
FILED 

032569 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
DEPUTY CLERK DOH Prosecution Services Unit 

CLERK Angel Sanders 
DATE 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4640 ext. 8173 
(850) 245-4681 FAX 

SRH/crv 

PCPDate: 
PCP Members: 

6 



(Page of 7) 

DOH v. Joshua Klasinsk,, P.A. DOH Case No.: 2012-04092 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess COStS related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent In addition to any other discipline imposed. 

7 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flonda through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Whitney Elizabeth Mack 
12301 Kernan Forest Blvd., #1105 
Jacksonville, FL 32225 

RE: Registered Pharmacy Technician Application 

Dear Ms. Mack: 

September 18, 2013 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, October 9, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. The meeting begins at 
1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.floridaspharmacy. gov/meeting-information/upcoming-meetings/. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

James Cumbie 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TWITTER: HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

HEAUrA 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 9> 

I.: 

I Biographical data 

Last name - First name 

I_____________ 
• Middle name 

Street address (ML — Mailing Location) City / 

Work address (PL — Practice Location) City 
(if you are not employed, please list your mailing address 

below). If you have multiple practice locations, please 

submit on an additional sheet, attach with . 
4070 

Home phone numbir Business phone number Date of birth 

(c7Ot/) 

E-mail address 

273 
Would you be willing to provide health services in 

special needs shelters or to help staff disaster medical 
assistance teams during times of emergency or major 
disasters? 

i; I 

Yes______ 

2. Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 

SEX: 0 Male Female 

0 Black 0 Other 

3. Have you ever changed your name through marriage or through action of a court or have you ever 

been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the change(s) below. Use a 

separate sheet, if necessary. 

Yes No 

Name Date 

DH-MQA PH1183, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 2 of 6 

FLORIDA 

HEALTh 
FLORIDA BOAR 
P.O. Box 6320 
Phone: (850) 4& 
http:llwww.dOh s 

03/04/2013 105.00 

ID; 49600 

BT: 3015510 

VL: 912046769 

Type: F 

ITEM #2 - Pharmacy Technician Registration Application 
FEE: $105.00 

Please print or type Ieaiblv 

State Zip -5 
Zip State 

çL 



(Page 3 of 9) 

4. Have you completed a board approved training course according to Rule 64B16-26.351 (3), ? 
Yes No lf yes, include a copy of your completed course certificate. 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendre, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

Yes No 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you 

would not have a record of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor 

traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

6. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacy technician registration, or any other 

professional license you may have in this state or any other state? 

7. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another jurisdiction 

when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No 

8. Are you presently under investigation or is any disciplinary action pending against ? 
Yes No K 

DH-MQA PH11B3, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 3 of 6 



(Page 5 of 9> 

13. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 817, 
F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and control) or 
a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If you responded "no", skip to ) 

Yes No 

13a. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 
date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent ? 

Yes No 

13b. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida Statutes). 

Yes No 

been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No 

13d. If "yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No______ 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 
U.S.C. ss. 1395-1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes i 
14a. If "yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the 
sentence and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes______ No_____ 

15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15a.) 

Yes No l 
15a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

DH-MQA PH1183, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 5 of 6 



(Page 6 of 9) 

Yes No 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? (If 
no, do not answer 16a and 16b.) 

Yes 

16a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program for 
the most recent five years? 

Yes X No 

16b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this 

Yes No 

Office of Inspector Generals List of Excluded Individuals and ? 
Yes____ No,)( 
18. If yes" to any of the questions l3through 17 above, on or before July 1,2009, were you 
enrolled in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking 
Iicensure that was recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of 
Health? (If "yes", please provide official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 
Yes______ No______ 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If you 
answer "yes" to any questions in 5-16b, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit a 
certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all if 
applicable. 

Section 456.013(1 )(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applicati ons as needed to reflect 
any material change in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place 
between the initial filing of the application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might 
affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements 
The my application and I do the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any 

investigations they deem appropriate and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize 
them to furnish any information they may have or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, 
institution, association, board or any municipal, county, state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I 

understand according to the Florida Board of Phami acy statutes, a pharmacy technician registration may be 
revoked or suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or for ged statement, certificate, diploma, or other 
thing, in connection with an application for a license or permit, as set forth in section 456.01 , F.S. 

1/ 
Applicant Signature Date 

DH-MQA PH1183, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 6 of 6 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


P
U

B
LI

X
 ©

 
F

ee
lin

g 
w

el
l. 

Li
vi

ng
 b

et
te

r 

pr
es

en
ts

 

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 C

om
pl

et
io

n 
to

 

W
hi

tn
ey

 M
ac

k 
fo

r 
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 t
he

 

P
ub

lix
 P

ha
rm

ac
y 

T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

B
as

ic
s 

D
at

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
10

/0
3/

20
12

 

F
re

d 
O

tto
lin

o,
 V

P
 o

f 
P

ha
rm

ac
y 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

R
T

T
P

I 5
 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve The health 
of all people in Florida Through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Wiley Chemists Pharmacy, Inc. 
DBA Wiley Chemists Pharmacy, Inc. 
Attn: Bruce Bowman 
1676 Hospital Drive 
Santa Fe, NM 87505 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, October 9, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham Bay Point 
Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. The meeting begins at 
1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.floridaspharmacy. gov/meeting-information/upcoming-meetings/. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Cumbie 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
ITrER:HealthyFLA h 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

September 18, 2013 

RE: Non-Resident Pharmacy Application 

Dear Mr. Bowman: 

Si 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 30) 

FLORIDA OF 

HEALT 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
P.O. Box 6320 
Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 
Telephone (850) 488-0595 
http://www.doh .state.fl .us/mqa/pharmacy 

04/05/2013 
ID: 19943 

BT: 301B000 

VL: 912053358 

255.00 

Type: F 

NON-RESIDENT PHARMACY REGISTRATION 

Application Type — Please choose one of the following: 

New Establishment ($255.00 Fee) — 3 
Change of Location ($100.00 Fee) 

Change of Ownership (a new permit number will be issued) ($255.00 Fee) 

If applicable, list existing permit number: 

List Federal Employer Identification Number: LI (plc. 
1. Corporate Name Telephone Number 

- 

2. Doing Business As (dibla) E-Mail Address 

W \'t kt.j - 

3. Mailing Address (-) 

City State Zip 

Fe 
4. Physical Address 

DriVe- 
City State I Zip 

5. List Prescription Department Manager (PDM) 

Name License No. Start Date Signature 

6. Contact Person 
C) C) 
Telephone Number 

7. DEA Registration Number 8. Do you have 24 hour access to patient records? 

2ril YES If no explain on separate sheet 

9. Please provide the name, address, telephone number, and permit number of your prescription drug 
wholesale distributor 
Name Telephone Number Permit Number 

Street Address City State Zip 
(b 

10. Operating Hours 
,.- r 

IDa. Provide the Toll-Free Telephone number 
available six days a week for 40 hours ,below: 

Prescription Hours 

Monday-Friday: Open Close: 

Saturday: Open: Close: 

Sunday: Open: Close: 

) 

DH-MQA, 1217, 08/12 Page 1 of 4 
Rule 64B16-28.XXX. F.A.C. 



(Page 2 of 30) 

II. Ownership Information 

a. Type of Ownership: 

_____Individual 

/' Corporation Partnership 

_______Other: _________________________________________________ 

NOTE: IF CORPORATION OR LIMITED PARTNERSHIP YOU MUST INCLUDE WITH YOUR APPLICATION A COPY OF THE ARTICLES OF 
INCORPORATION ON FILE WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATES OFFICE WHERE THE PHARMACY IS LOCATED. 

b. Are the applicants, officers, shareholders, members and partners over the age of ? 
Yes No 

c. List each person having an ownership interest of 5 percent or greater and any person who, directly or 
indirectly. manaaes. oversees, or controls the of the applicant Attach a separate sheet If necessary. 

Owner/Officer-Title Date of Birth Mailing Address % of Ownership - 

r7 / / / / / / V I C 
'- 

Pursuant to Section 456.0635(2), Florida Statutes, questions 12 through 18 must be answered. If you 
answer yes to any of the following questions, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details and 
submit copies of supporting documentation. 
12. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendre to, regardless of adjudication, 
a felony under Chapter 409, Chapter 817, or Chapter 893, Florida Statutes; or 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 or 42 
U.S.C. ss.1395-1396? (If no, do not answer 13.) 

/ (You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was J withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record of conviction. 
Yes 

__________ 

No Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic 
offense for the purposes of this question.) 

13. If "yes" to 12, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 
date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes No 

13a. If "yes" to 12, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes No 

13b. If "yes" to 12, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, 
has it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No______ 

DH.MQA. 1217, 08112 Page 2 of 4 
Rule 64B16-28.XXX, F.A.C. 



(Page 4 of 5) 

13c. If "yes" to 12, has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated 

person of the applicant successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for the 

felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 

documentation). 

Yes No______ 

14. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 

applicant ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15.) 

Yes No 

15. If the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 

applicant has been terminated, has the applicant been reinstated and in good standing with the Florida 

Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 
(If yes. explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

Yes No 

16. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the state 
or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 17 and 18) 

Yes 

___________ 

No 
(If explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

17. Has the applicant been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare 
program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 
(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

18. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this 

a separate sheet providing accurate details) 
I 

_____________ _______________ 

19. Are you currently registered or permitted in any other states? If yes, provide the state, permit type, 
and permit number for each permit. Attach a separate sheet if . 
Yes No 

* 

State Permit Type . Permit Number 

20. Has the applicant, affiliated persons, partners, officer, directors, or PDM or Consultant Pharmacist of 
Record ever owned a pharmacy? If yes, provide the name of the pharmacy, the state where the 
pharmacy is located and the of Attach a separate sheet if necessary. 

Yes No yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

Pharmacy Name State Status 

21. Has any disciplinary action ever been taken against any license, permit or registration issued to the 
applicant, affiliated persons, partners, pfficers, directors or PDM in this state or any ? 
Yes 

___________ 

No ' (If yes. explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

DH-MQA. 1217, 08112 Page 3 of 4 
Rule .28.XXX. F.A.C. 



(S'age 4 of 30) 

22. Is there any other permit issued byji'ie Florida Department of Health located at the physical location 
address on this application? / 
Yes 

__________ 

No 

___________ 

(II yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

23. Is the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant currently listed on the United Stfr(es Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector Generals List of and Entities? 

Yes______ No______ 

ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED OR YOUR APPLICATION WILL BE RETURNED 

Section 456.013(1), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change in any 
circumstances or conditions stated in the application, which takes place between the initial filing of the application and the final grant or 
denial of the license, which might affect the decision of the department. 

I certify that the statements contained in this application are true, complete. and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the 
basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations that they deem appropriate and to 
secure any additional information concerning me, and further authorize them to furnish any information they may have or have in the 
future concerning me to any person. corporation, institution, association, board, or any municipal, . state, or federal governmental 
agencies or units, and I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy Statutes that a Pharmacy Permit may be revoked or 
suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other thing, in connection with an application 
for a license or permit. as set forth in Section 465.015(2)(a), F.S. 

Under penalty of e ury I have read th re ing document and that the facts stated in it are true. I recognize that providing false 
information may r s It in disciplinary a io g inst my license or criminal penalties. 

ner/Oflicer 
TITLE Ow DATE / 13 

DH-MQA. 08I'12 Page 4 of 4 
Rule 64B1&-28.XXX, F.A.C. 

Instrumont was 



(Page 5 of 30) 

lit 

ilth, 

EY! Dultn.1J Ut ruAnPutbi 
5200 OA A 

NM 87113 
(505) 222-9830 (800) 565-9102 

Fax (505) 222-9845 

TY: 
- 

LX: 

MAIL: - 

DATE: 

wi 
USABLE FLOOR SPACE (sq. ft.):____________________________ 

DtJNTER DIMENSIONS: w 
COUNTER SPACE (sq. fL). 

ACCESS: s/YES; — NO. 

JBRENT NM PHARMACY LAWS I REGULATIONS: 

JRRENT 

I JNTERNET 

___BOOR, ___INIERNET 

EFRIGERATOR THERMOMETER: 
'ATE& - VHCYr; ./ COLD 
ECESSAR+ EQUIPMENT: 
DEQUATE SECURiTY/LOCKS TO AREA: 

OLICY MANUAL:___________________ 
STORXNG AND SAPEKEENNG OF DRUGS: 
RECORI) KEEPING SYSTEM FOR DRUGS: 

PURcHASE 
SALE 
POSSESSION 
RETURN 
PATIENT PROFILE 

ERIWR PREVENTION PROCEDURES: 
ADVERSE DRUG EVENT REPORTIN&. 

—. 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 13 of 30) 

New Mexico Regulation and Licensing Department 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS DIVISION 

Board of Pharmacy 
5200 Oakland Avenue, NE • Suite A Albuquerque, New Mexico 87113 

(505) 222-9830 • Fax (505) 222-9845 • (800) 565-9102 
http:/ / rmaCY.aSPx 

Name of Licensee (as it appears in our records): Wiley Chemists, Inc. 

License PH0003297 - - 

Current Status: Active 

Original Date of Licensure: 06/06/2011 

Expiration Date: 12/31/2014 

if licensee has an * asterisk next to their name there are board actions against them please go to this 

link to view actions. http://www.rld.state.nm.us/boards/Ph Disciplinary Actions.aspx 

Tide: licensing Assistant 

Date: March 28, 2013 

El 

Certification of New Mexico Board of Pharmacy 
Retail Pharmacy 

license for the licensee listed below: 



(Page 9 of 30) 

Board of Pharmacy Page 1 of I 

OF CONSUMER AFFMRS 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Ucensee Name: WILEY CHEMISTS INC 

License Type: NON RESIDENT PHARMACY 

License Number: 1238 

License Status: CLEAR Definition 

Expiration Date: July01, 2013 

Issue Date: July 10, 2012 

Address: 1676 HOSPITAL DR 

City: SANTA FE 

State: NM 

Zip: 87505 

County: OUT OF STATE 

Actions: No 

Related Licens strations /Perm its 

No records returned 

Public Disclosure 

No information available from this agency 

This information is updated Monday through Friday - Last updated: JAN-31-2013 

Disclaimer 
All information provided by the Department of Consumer Affairs on this web page, end on its other web pages and internet sites, is made 

available to provide immediate access for the convenience of interested persons. While the Department believes the information to be 

reliable, human or mechanical error remains a possibility, as does delay in the posting or updating of information. Therefore, (tie 

Department m8kes no guarantee as to the accuracy, timeliness, currency, or correct sequencing of the information. 

Neither the Department, nor any of the sources of the information, shall be responsible for any errors or omissions, or for the use or 

results obtained from the use of this information. Other specific cautionary notices may be included on other web pages maintained by 

the Department. All access to and use of this web page and any other web page or internet site of the Department is governed by the 

Disclaimers and Conditions for Access and Use as set forth at California Department of Consumer Affairs Disclaimer In formation and 

Use Irifoirnat . 

2/1/2013 



(Page 10 of 30) 

This State Controlled Substance Registration is issued pursuant to NMSA 30-31-12 & 13 and 
NMAC 16.19.20.8 & 9 for the following personlfacility at the shown location and for the period 

show hereon. 

License Number: CS00216610 Original Issue Date: 0610612011 
Expiration Date: 0513112013 

Schedule of Drugs: 2 2N 3 3N 45 

Wiley Chemists, Inc. 

1676 Hospital Drive 
Santa Fe, NM 87505 

Richard Mazzoni, CHAIRMAN 

NON-TRANSFERABLE 



(Page 11 of 30) 

REMINDERS: (Please read important ) 
* You need to keep the Board apprised of the current mailing address, by submitting a written or faxed request for a 

change of address. Please include facility name and license number. 

* Please pay attention to the expiration date of your license. If you do not receive a renewal notice, at least four (4) 
weeks prior to 12/31/2014, contact the Board Office and request that a renewal form be mailed to you. 

* You may also download a generic application on line through our website / once 
there click on Individuals Boards and Commissions then click on Pharmacy then click on forms and applications. 

* A change of name requires that you submit a written request along with a fee, and copy of the legal 
document supporting the name change, also the request if there was a change of ownership. 

Wiley Chemists, Inc. 

P1100003297 Retail 

12/31/2014 

Original issue Date: 06/0612011 

License is hereby granted to operate a Pharmacy Retail in accordance with provisions under 
chapter 61-11-14, 26, 30 NMSA 1978 Comp., Laws of New Mexico at the address and for the 

period shown hereon. 

License Number: P1100003297 Original Issue Date: 06106/2011 
Expiration Date: 12/31/2014 

Wiley Chemists, Inc. 

1676 Hospital Drive 
Santa Fe, NM 87505 

Richard Mazzoni, CHAIRMAN 

NON-TRANSFERABLE 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 14 30) 

OFFICE OF THE 

PUBLIC REGULATION COMMISSION 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

OF 

WILEY CHEMISTS INC. 

4424677 

The Public Regulation Commission certifies that the 

Articles of Incorporation, duly signed and verified 
pursuant to the provisions of the 

BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT 
(53-11-1 to 53-18-12 NMSA 1978) 

have been received by it & are found to conform to law. 

Accordingly, by virtue of the authority vested in it by 
law, the Public Regulation Commission issues this 

Certificate of Incorporation & attaches hereto, a duplicate 

of the Articles of Incorporation. 

Dated: MARCH 24, 2011 

In testimony whereof, the Public Regulation Commission of 
the state of New Mexico has caused this certificate to be 

signed by its chairman and the seas of said Commission to be 

affixed in City of Santa Fe. 

Chairman 



(Page 15 of 30) 

.1: 

Profit Corporation I —— 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

! 
The undersigned, actmg as mcorporatar(s) to form a corporation under the New Mexico 

adopt the following Articles of Incorporation: 

SUBMIT ORIGINAL AND A COPY 

TYPE OR PRINT LEGIBLY 

ARTICLE ONE: The name of the corporation is: Wiley Chemists . 
ARTICLE TWO: The period of duration (if other than perpetual) is: 

ARTICLE THREE: The purpose for which the corporation is organized is:_________________ 
to engage in the business of Retail, Pharmacy 

ARTICLE FOUR: The aggregate number of shares which the corporation shall have authority to 

issue is: (attach schedule needed) 100,000 

ARTICLE FIVE: 
(1) The New Mexico street address of the corporation's initial registered office is: 

4801 Lang Avenue, Suite 110, Albuquerque, NM 87109 

(P.O. Box is not acceptable. Provide a description of the geographical location if a street address does not 

eiist.) 

(2) The name of the initial registered agent at the address of the initial registered office is: 

United States Corporation Agents, Inc. 

ARTICLE SIX: The names and addresses of the initial board of directors are: (attach schedule if 
needed) 

ADDRESS 

518 Old Santa Fe Trail, #597, Santa Fe, 
New Mexico 87505 

ARTICLE SEVEN: The name and address of each incorporator is: (attach schedule if needed) 

NAME 

LegalZoom.com, lnc 

Dated: 312312011 

ADDRESS 

101 N. Brand Blvd., 11th Floor. Glendale, CA 91203 

LegalZoom.com, Inc., Incorporator 

Z 4 

M PllBL\ll BEti. 

Eileen Gatlo, Authorized Signatory 

NAME 
Teresa Sue WHey 

Form DPR 
(revised 7/03) 

of Incorporator(s) 
ied in Article Seven must sign) 



(Page 16 of 30) 

STATEMENT OF ACCEPTANCE OF APPOINTMENT 
BY DESIGNATED INITIAL REGISTERED AGENT 

I, Jacob Varghese 

hereby acknowledge that the undersigned individual or corporation accepts appointment 

as Initial Registered Agent of Wiley Chemists . 
the corporation which is named in the annexed Articles of Incorporation. 

(Sign on this line if the registered agent named in the Articles of Incorporation is an individuaL 

If this line is signed, the two lines below do not apply and must be left blank.) 

——— 

CORPORATION ACTING AS A REGISTERED AGENT ONLY 

(If the following lines are used, the signature line above does not apply and must be left blank) 

United States Corporation Agents, 

(If the registered agent in the rtic s of Incorporation is a corporation, type or print the 

name of that 'here) 
By 1/ " 
(An authorized officer of the Corp ation being appointed as registered agent must sign here) 

Form D-STMNT 
(revised 07/03) 



17 of 30) 

CD BYLAWS 

OF 

Wiley Chemists Inc. 

ARTICLE I 

Shareholders 

Section 1.1. Annual . An annual meeting of shareholders shall 

be held for the election of directors on a date and at a time and place either within or 

without the State of New Mexico fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors. Any 

other proper business may be transacted at the annual meeting, except as limited by any 

notice or other requirements under the New Mexico Business Corporation Act. 

Section 1.2. Special . Special meetings of the shareholders may 

be called at any time by the Board of Directors or the holders of shares entitled to cast not 

less than 10% of the votes at the meeting, such meeting to be held on a date and at a time 

and place either within or without the State of New Mexico as may be stated in the notice 

of the meeting. 

Section 1.3. Notice of . Whenever shareholders are required or 

permitted to take any action at a meeting a written notice of the meeting shall be given 

not less than ten (10) nor more than fifty (50) days before the date of the meeting to each 

shareholder entitled to vote thereat. Such notice shall state the place, date and hour of the 

meeting, and (i) in the case of a special meeting, the general nature of the business to be 

transacted, and no other business may be transacted, or (ii) in the case of the annual 

meeting, those matters which the Board, at the time of the mailing of the notice, intends 

to present for action by the shareholders. The notice of any meeting at which directors 

are to be elected shall include a list of the names of the nominees intended at the time of 
the mailing of the notice to be presented by the Board for election. 

Notice of a shareholders' meeting or any report shall be given either 

personally or by first-class mail or other means of written communication, addressed to 

the shareholder at the address of such shareholder appearing on the books of the 

corporation or given by the shareholder to the corporation for the purpose of notice. The 

notice shaB be deemed to have been given at the time when delivered personally or 

deposited in the mail or sent by other means of written communication. 

Section 1.4. . When a shareholders' meeting is adjourned to 

another time or place, except as otherwise provided in this Section 1.4, notice need not be 

given of any such adjourned meeting if the time and place thereof are announced at the 

meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting the corporation 

—1— 



(Page 18 of 30) 

may transact any business which might have been transacted at the original meeting. If 
the adjournment is for more than 45 days or if after the adjournment a new record date is 
fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each 
shareholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting. 

Section 1.5. Validating Meeting of Waiver of . The 
transactions of any meeting of shareholders, however called and noticed, and wherever 
held, are as valid as though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if a 
quorum is present either in person or by proxy, and if, either before or after the meeting, 
each of the persons entitled to vote, not present in person or by proxy, signs a written 
waiver of notice or a consent to the holding of the meeting or an approval of the minutes 
thereof. All such waivers, consents and approvals shall be filed with the corporate 
records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting. Attendance of a person at a 
meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of and presence at such meeting, except when 
the person objects, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business 
because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened and except that attendance at a 
meeting is not a waiver of any right to object to the consideration of matters required by 
law to be included in the notice but not so included, if such objection is expressly made at 
the meeting. Neither the business to be transacted at nor the purpose of any regular or 
special meeting of shareholders need be specified in any written waiver of notice, consent 
to the holding of the meeting or approval of the minutes thereof, except as required by the 
New Mexico Business Corporation Act. 

Section 1.6. . A majority of the shares entitled to vote, 
represented in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of the 
shareholders. The shareholders present at a duly called or held meeting at which a 
quorum is present may continue to transact business until adjournment notwithstanding 
the withdrawal of enough shareholders to leave less than a quorum, if any action taken 
(other than adjournment) is approved by at least a majority of the shares required to 
constitute a quorum. In the absence of a quorum, any meeting of shareholders may be 
adjourned from time to time by the vote of a majority of the shares represented either in 
person or by proxy, but no other business may be transacted, except as provided in this 
Section 1.6. 

Section 1.7. . Meetings of shareholders shall be presided 
over by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, if any, or in the absence of the Chairman 
of the Board by the Vice Chairman of the Board, if any, or in the absence of the Vice 
Chairman of the Board by the President, or in the absence of the foregoing persons by a 
chairman designated by the Board of Directors, or in the absence of such designation by a 
chairman chosen at the meeting. The Secretary, or in the absence of the Secretary, an 
Assistant Secretary, shall act as secretary of the meeting, or in their absence the chairman 
of the meeting may appoint any person to act as secretary of the meeting. 

Section 1.8. . Unless otherwise provided in the articles of 
(j'; incorporation, each outstanding share, regardless of class, shall be entitled to one vote on 

each matter submitted to a vote of shareholders. 

-2- 



(Page 19 of 30> 

Any holder of shares entitled to vote on any matter may vote part of the 
shares in favor of the proposal and refrain from voting the remaining shares or vote them 
against the proposal, other than elections to office, but, if the shareholder fails to specify 
the number of shares such shareholder is voting affirmatively, it will be conclusively 
presumed that the shareholder's approving vote is with respect to all shares such 
shareholder is entitled to vote. 

If a quorum is present, directors shall be elected by a plurality of the votes 
of the shares present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote 
on the election of directors. In all other matters, unless otherwise provided by New 
Mexico law or by the articles of incorporation or these bylaws, the affirmative vote of the 
holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote on the subject matter at a meeting in 
which a quorum is present shall be the act of the stockholders. Where a separate vote by 
class or classes is required, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares 
of such class or classes at a meeting in which a quorum is present shall be the act of such 
class or classes, except as otherwise provided by New Mexico law or by the articles of 
incorporation or these bylaws 

Section 1.9. Shareholder's . At all meetings of shareholders, a 
shareholder may vote by proxy executed in writing by the shareholder or by his duly 
authorized attorney-in-fact. Such proxy shall be filed with the Secretary of the 
corporation before or at the time of the meeting. No proxy shall be valid after the 
expiration of eleven months from the date thereof unless otherwise provided in the proxy. 
Every proxy continues in full force and effect until revoked by the person executing it 
prior to the vote pursuant thereto, except as otherwise provided in this Section 1.9. Such 
revocation may be effected by a writing delivered to the corporation stating that the proxy 
is revoked or by a subsequent proxy executed by the person executing the prior proxy and 
presented to the meeting, or as to any meeting by attendance at such meeting and voting 
in person by the person executing the proxy. 

Section 1.10. In advance of any meeting of shareholders the 
Board of Directors may appoint inspectors of election to act at the meeting and any 
adjournment thereof. 

Section 1.11. Date for Determination of Shareholders of . 
In order that the corporation may determine the shareholders entitled to notice of any 
meeting or to vote or to express consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting 
or entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any 
rights or entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any other lawful action, the Board of 
Directors may fix, in advance, a record date, which shall not be more than sixty nor less 
than ten days prior to the date of such meeting nor more than sixty days prior to any other 
action. 

If no record date is fixed: (1) the record date for determining shareholders 
entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of shareholders shall be at the close of 
business on the business day next preceding the day on which notice is given or, if notice 

-3- 



(Page 20 of 30) 

(1) is waived, at the close of business on the business day next preceding the day on which 
the meeting is held; (2) the record date for determining shareholders entitled to give 
consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, when no prior action by the 
Board has been taken, shall be the day on which the first written consent is given; and (3) 
the record date for determining shareholders for any other purpose shall be at the close of 
business on the day on which the Board adopts the resolution relating thereto or the 
sixtieth day prior to the date of such other action, whichever is later. When a detennina- 
tion of shareholders entitled to vote at any meeting of shareholders has been made as 
provided in this section, such determination shall apply to any adjournment thereof. 

Section 1.12. Consent of Shareholders in Lieu of . Except as 

otherwise provided in the articles of incorporation or under the New Mexico Business 
Corporation Act, any action which may be taken at any annual or special meeting of the 
shareholders may be taken without a meeting and without prior notice, if a consent in 
writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the holders of all outstanding 
shares entitled to vote thereon. 

ARTICLE II 

Board of Directors 

Section 2.1. : The business and affairs of 
the corporation shall be managed by, and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or 
under, the direction of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided in these 
by-laws or in the articles of incorporation. The number of directors comprising the first 
Board of Directors shall be fixed in the initial Articles of Incorporation. Thereafter, the 
Board of Directors shall consist of one or more members, the exact number to be fixed 
from time to time by the Board. 

Section 2.2. Election; Term of Office; Resignation; . At each 
annual meeting of shareholders, directors shall be elected to hold office until the next 
annual meeting. Each director, including a director elected to fill a vacancy, shall hold 
office until the expiration of the term for which elected and until a successor has been 
elected and qualified. Any director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the 
Chairman of the Board, the Secretary or the Board of Directors of the corporation, unless 

the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such resignation. If the 
resignation is effective at a future time, a successor may be elected to take office when 
the resignation becomes effective. 

Subject to the provisions of the New Mexico Business Corporation Act, 
any director may be removed with or without cause at any time by the shareholders of the 
corporation at a special meeting called for such purpose. In addition, any director may be 
removed for cause by action of the Board. - 

-4- 



(Page 21 of 30) 

Unless otherwise provided in the articles of incorporation or these by-laws 

and except for a vacancy caused by the removal of a director, vacancies on the Board 
may be filled by appointment by the Board. The shareholders may elect a director at any 

time to fill a vacancy not filled by the Board of Directors. 

Section 2.3. Regular . Regular meetings of the Board of 
Directors may be held without notice at such places within or without the State of New 
Mexico and at such times as the Board may from time to time determine. 

Section 2.4. Meetings: Notice of Meetings: Waiver of . 
Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any time or place within or 

without the State of New Mexico whenever called by the Chairman of the Board, by the 

Vice Chairman of the Board, if any, or by any two directors. Subject to any greater 

notice requirements set forth in the New Mexico Business Corporation Act, special 

meetings shall be held on five t notice by mail or 48 hours' notice delivered 
personally or by telephone, fax, e-mail or any other means of communication authorized 

by the New Mexico Business Corporation Act. Notice delivered personally or by 

telephone may be transmitted to a person at the director's office who can reasonably be 

expected to deliver such notice promptly to the director. 

Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director who signs a waiver 

of notice or a consent to holding the meeting or an approval of the minutes thereof, 

whether before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting, prior 
thereto or at its commencement, the lack of notice to such director. All such waivers, 

consents and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the 

minutes of the meeting. A notice, or waiver of notice, need not specify the purpose of 
any regular or special meeting of the Board. 

Section 2.5. Participation in Meetings by Conference Telephone . Members of the Board, or any committee designated by the Board, may 
participate in a meeting of the Board or of such committee, as the case may be, through 
the use of conference telephone or similar communications equipment permitted by the 
New Mexico Business Corporation Act, so long as all members participating in such 

meeting can hear one another, and participation in a meeting pursuant to this Section 2.5 

shall constitute presence in person at such meeting. 

Section 2.6. Quorum; Adjournment; Vote Required for . At all 

meetings of the Board of Directors one-half of the authorized number of directors shall 

constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Subject to the provisions of the New 
Mexico Business Corporation Act, every act or decision done or made by a majority of 
the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the 
Board unless the articles of incorporation or these by-laws shall require a vote of a 

greater number. 

A majority of the directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, 
may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. If the meeting is adjourned for more 

-5- 





(Page 23 of 30) 

ARTICLE IV 

Officers 

Section 4.1. Officers; . As soon as practicable after the annual 
meeting of shareholders in each year, the Board of Directors shall elect a President, a 
Treasurer and a Secretary. The Board may also elect one or more Vice Presidents, one or 
more Assistant Secretaries, and such other officers as the Board may deem desirable or 
appropriate and may give any of them such further designations or alternate titles as it 
considers desirable. Any number of offices may be held by the same person. 

Section 4.2. Term of Office; Resignation; Removal; . Except as 
otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors electing any officer, each 
officer shall hold office until his or her successor is elected and qualified or until his or 
her earlier resignation or removal. Any officer may resign at any time upon written 
notice to the Board or to the Chairman of the Board or the Secretary of the corporation. 
Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, and unless otherwise 
specified therein no acceptance of such resignation shall be necessary to make it 
effective. The Board may remove any officer with or without cause at any time. Any 
such removal shall be without prejudice to the contractual rights of such officer, if any, 
with the corporation, but the election of an officer shall not of itself create contractual 
rights. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the corporation by death, resignation, 
removal or otherwise may be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by the Board at 
any regular or special meeting. 

Section 4.3. Powers and . The officers of the corporation shall 
have such powers and duties in the management of the corporation as shall be stated in 
these by-laws or in a resolution of the Board of Directors which is not inconsistent with 
these by-laws and, to the extent not so stated, as generally pertain to their respective 
offices, subject to the control of the Board. The Secretary shall have the duty to record 
the proceedings of the meetings of the shareholders, the Board of Directors and any 
committees in a book to be kept for that purpose. 

Section 4.4. . The salaries, compensation and other benefits, if 
any, of the officers shall be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors, and no 
officer shall be prevented from receiving such salary by reason of the fact that he is also a 

Director of the corporation. 

-7- 



(Page 24 of 30) 

ARTICLE V 

Forms of Certificates: Loss 
and Transfer of Shares 

Section 5.1. Forms of . Every holder of shares in the 
corporation shall be entitled to have a certificate signed in the name of the corporation by 
(1) the President, any Vice President, Chairman of the Board or Vice Chairman, and (2) 
by the Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Secretary or Assistant 
Secretary, of the corporation, certifying the number of shares and the class or series of 
shares owned by such shareholder, If such certificate is manually signed by one officer 
or manually countersigned by a transfer agent or by a registrar, any other signature on the 
certificate may be a facsimile. In case any officer, transfer agent or registrar who has 
signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased 
to be such officer, transfer agent or registrar before such certificate is issued, it may be 
issued by the corporation with the same effect as if such person were such officer, 
transfer agent or registrar at the date of issue. 

Section 5.2. Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Stock Certificates: Issuance of 
New . The corporation may issue a new share certificate or a new certificate 
for any other security in the place of any certificate theretofore issued by it, alleged to 
have been lost, stolen or destroyed, and the corporation may require the owner of the lost, 
stolen or destroyed certificate, or such owner's legal representative, to give the 
corporation a bond sufficient to indemnify it against any claim that may be made against 
it (including any expense or liability) on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction 
of any such certiflcate or the issuance of such new certificate. 

ARTICLE VI 

Records and Reports 

Section 6.1. Shareholder . The corporation shall keep at its 
principal executive office or at the office of its transfer agent or registrar a record of the 
names and addresses of all shareholders and the number and class of shares held by each 
shareholder. 

Section 6.2. Documents and . The corporation shall 
keep at its principal executive office the original or a copy of the articles of incorporation 
arid by-laws as amended to date, which shall be open to inspection by the shareholders at 
all reasonable times during office hours. The corporation shall, upon the written request 
of any shareholder, furnish to that shareholder a copy of the articles of incorporation or 
by-laws as amended to date. 

(Jj Section 6.3. Minutes and Accounting . The minutes of proceedings 
of the shareholders, the Board of Directors, and committees of the Board, 

-8- 



(Page 25 of 30) 

and the accounting books and records shall be kept at the principal executive office of the 
corporation, or at such other place or places as designated by the Board of Directors. The 
minutes shall be kept in written form, and the accounting books and records shall be kept 
either in written form or in a form capable of being converted into written form. 

Section 6.4. Inspection by . Subject to applicable New Mexico 
law, every director shall have the right at any reasonable time to inspect all books, 
records, and documents of every kind and the physical properties of the corporation and 
each of its subsidiary corporations for purposes relating to his or her status as director. 
This inspection by a director may be made in person or by an agent or attorney and the 
right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts of documents. 

Section 6.5. Annual Report to . Subject to the New Mexico Business Corporation Act, for as long as the corporation has fewer than the number of 
shareholders specified in the applicable statute, if any, any requirement of an annual 
report to shareholders is expressly waived. However, nothing in this provision shall be 
interpreted as prohibiting the Board of Directors from issuing annual or other periodic 
reports to the shareholders, as the Board considers appropriate. 

Section 6.6. Financial . The corporation shall keep a copy of 
each annual fmancial statement, quarterly or other periodic income statement, and 
accompanying balance sheets prepared by the corporation on file in the corporations 
principal office for 12 months; these documents shall be exhibited at all reasonable times, 
or copies provided, to any shareholder on demand. 

Section 6.7. Form of . Any records maintained by the corporation 
in the regular course of its business, with the exception of minutes of proceedings of 
the shareholders, and of the Board of Directors and its committees, but including the 
corporations stock ledger and books of account, may be kept on, or be in the form of 
magnetic tape, photographs, microphotographs or any other information storage device, 
provided that the records so kept can be converted into clearly legible form within a 
reasonable time. The corporation shall so convert any records so kept upon the request of 
any person entitled to inspect the same. 

ARTICLE VII 

Miscellaneous 

Section 7.1. Principal Executive or Business . The Board of 
Directors shall fix the location of the principal executive office of the corporation at any 
place either within or without the State of New Mexico. 

Section 7.2. Fiscal . The fiscal year of the corporation shall be 
determined by the Board of Directors. 

-9- 



(Page 26 of 30> 

Section 7.3. The corporation may have a corporate seal which shall 
have the name of the corporation inscribed thereon and shall be in such form as may be 
approved from time to time by the Board of Directors. The corporate seal may be used 
by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or in any other manner 
reproduced. 

Section 7.4. . The corporation shall have the power to 
indemnify, to the maximum extent and in the manner permitted by the New Mexico 
Business Corporation Act (the "Code"), each of its directors, officers, employees and 
agents against expenses, judgments, fmes, settlements, and other amounts actually and 
reasonably incurred in connection with any proceeding arising by reason of the fact that 
such person is or was an agent of the corporation. 

The corporation shall have the power, to the extent and in the manner 
permitted by the Code, to indemnify each of its employees and agents (other than 
directors and officers) against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts 
actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any proceeding, arising by reason of 
the fact that such person is or was an agent of the corporation. 

Section 7.5. . The Board of Directors may authorize any officer 
or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any 
instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation, and such authority may be 
general or confined to specific instances. 

Section 7.6. . The Board of Directors may from time to time 
declare, and the corporation may pay dividends on its outstanding shares in the manner 
and upon the terms and conditions provided by New Mexico law and its articles of 
incorporation. 

Section 7.7. Amendment of . To the extent permitted by law, 
these by-laws may be amended or repealed, and new by-laws adopted, by the Board of 
Directors. The shareholders entitled to vote, however, retain the right to adopt additional 
by-laws and may amend or repeal any by-law whether or not adopted by them. 

-10- 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Mission: 
To pratect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State General & Secretary 

Entirely Pets Pharmacy, LLC 
Rita Ghumman 
34571 Seventh Street 
Union City, CA 94587 

September 19, 2013 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, October 9, 2013 at 9:00a.m. The meeting is being held at the Wyndham 
Bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley Drive, Panama City Beach, FL 32408, (850) 236-6000. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.floridaspharmacy.gov/meeting-information/upcoming-meetings/ 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Jay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Heafth 
Board of Pharmacy 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

HLTI 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

RE: Request to Appeal Notice of Intent to Deny 

Dear Ms. Ghumman: 

Sincerely, 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


THE FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

ENTIRELYPETS PHARMACY, LLC, 
Petitioner, 

V. 

Board of Pharmacy Case No. 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY, 

Respondent 

I 

Petitioner's Request for Hearing to Appeal Denial of Non-Resident Pharmacy 

License, Brought Per Section 120.57(2) Florida Statutes 

Comes now the Petitioner EntirelyPets Pharmacy, LLC ("EntirelyPetS"), which 

petitions the Flordia Board of Pharmacy ("Board"), through its Executive Director, for a 

hearing to consider EntirelyPets' appeal from the denial of its application for a non- 

resident pharmacy permit, as follows: 

1. Petitioner received notice of the Board's action, denying EntirelyPets' application 

for a non-resident pharmacy permit ("Application"), through the Board's letter, mailed 

June 26, 2013, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. 

2. Petitioner is represented in this Petition by attorney Noah E. Jussim, whose 

address is Noah Jussim, McGuireWoodS LLP, 1800 Century Park East, th Floor, 

Los Angeles, CA 90067, having telephone number (310) 315-8225, fax number 

(310) 956-3125, and email address EntirelyPets' 

address is 34501 Seventh Street, Union City, CA 94587. 

3. Petitioner's substantial interest will be affected by the Board's determination 

because: (1) it would be unable to dispense medication to veterinary patients in 

Florida, when the owners of the patient animals may wish that EntirelyPets could 

serve their prescription needs; and (2) the Board's adverse determination will likely 

affect EntirelyPets' applications for licensure in other states. 
RECEIVED 

JUL 7 

1 



4. While there is no dispute of the material fact that EntirelyPets' license has been 

disciplined by the California State Board of Pharmacy ("California Board"), which is 

EntirelyPets' domicile state licensing agency, the California Board had determined in 

the first instance to issue a resident pharmacy license to EntirelyPets subject to 

discipline, to resolve citations pending against EntirelyPets concerning alleged pre- 

license activity. Given that the California Board did not deny a license altogether to 

EntirelyPets, but, determined it to be in the public interest to issue a license to 

EntirelyPets, subject to discipline, the Board should exercise its discretion to take 

some lesser action against EntirelyPets, rather than denying EntirelyPets' application. 

Florida Statute 456.072(2) specifically empowers the Board to take such a lesser step 

under these circumstances. 

We thank the Board very much for its time and consideration. 

Respectfully submitted, 

NoaFfE. Jussim 
for Petitioner EntirelyPets 

Pharmacy, LLC 
California State Bar Number 194103 
McGuireWoodS LLP 
1800 Century Park East 
th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90067 
(310) 315.8297 
(310) 315.8210 (facsimile) 

2 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 

STATE OF FLORIDA CLERK Ange( SandeTs 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
JUN 2 

IN RE: APPLICATION FOR NON-RESIDENT 
PhARMACY PERMIT ENTIRELYPETS PHARMACY, LLC. 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO DENY 

This matter came before the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the "Board") at a duly 

noticed public meeting held on June 5, 2013, in Miami, Florida, pursuant to the Applicant's 

request for license. The applicant was not present. 

The Applicant is a licensed pharmacy in the State of California. Applicant's license has been 
disciplined by the California State Board of Pharmacy by way of stipulation on September21, 
2012, with an effective date of October 22, 2012. 

Pursuant to Section 456.072(2); 456.072(1 )(f); 465.023(1); and 465.23(1 )(c), Florida Statutes, 
the board may deny the application based on the out-of-state disciplined imposed against the 

license. 

Therefore, based on the prior discipline, the application for a non-resident permit is 

hereby DENIED. 

IX)NE AND ORDERED this day of_______ 

_________, 

2013. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

M- Whitten, — 

A rt Garcia, BPharm, Chair 



NOTICE OF RIGHT TO HEARING 

THIS NOTICE CONSTITUTES A FINAL ORDER AND FINAL AGENCY ACTION F NO 
REQUEST FOR A HEARING IS RECEIVED BY THE BOAR I) ON OR BEFORE THE 
TWENTY-FIRST DAY AFTER THE RECEIPT OF THE NOTICE. THE 
APPLICANT MAY REQUEST A HEARING BY FILING AN APPROPRIATE PETITION 
WITI-I THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE BOARD AT 4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY, 
BEN C-04, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-3256. THE APPLICANT MAY ION 
FOR A HEARING INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT BEFORE AN 
ADMINISTRKI'IVE LAW JUDGE PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.57 (1), FLORIDA 
STATUTES, OR FOR A HEARING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL 
FACT PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.57 (2) FLORIDA STATUTES. 

A PETITION FOR A HEARING INVOLVING DISI'UTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 
MUST CONTAIN INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 28-106.201, FLORIDA 
ISTRA1'IVE CODE, INCLUDING A STATEMENT OF ALL DISPUTED ISSUES OF 
MATERIAL FACT. THE BOARI) MAY REFER A PETITION TO THE DIVISION OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS FOR ASSJGNMEN1' OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE LAW 
JIJDGE ONLY IF THE PETITION IS IN SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH TFIE RULE 
REQUIREMENTS. A PE1ITION FOR A PROCEEDING NO1 INVOLVING DISPUTED 
ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT MUST CONTAIN INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 
28.106.301 FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, )ING A CONCISE STATEMENT 
OF THE ULTIMATE FACTS ALLEGED, AS WELL AS THE RULES AND STATUTES 
WHICH ENTITLE PETITIONER TO RELIEF. 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH SEC11ON 120.573, FLORIDA MEDIATION IS NOT 
AVAILABLE. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been furnished 

by Certified Mail to Entirely Pets Pharmacy, LLC, 34571 Seventh Street, Union City. 

California 94587; by electronic mail to David D. Flynn. Assistant Attorney General, Office of 

the Attorney General, david. com 

2013. 

7012 1010 13000 2223 9707 
- 

I —___________ 

Deputy Agency Clerk 



Page 1 of 77) 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

P.O. Box 6320 
Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

Telephone (850) 488-0595 

http://www.doh .state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy 

NON-RESIDENT PHARMACY REGISTRATION 

Application Type — Please choose one of the following: 

03/14/2013 255.00 

ID: Type: F 

3016403 

VL: 912049135 

List Federal Employer identification Number: 

1. Corporate Name LLC. 

2. Doing Business As (d!bla) 

W14 

77 7 
Telephone Number 

E-Mail Address 

3. Mailing Address 

City 
State 

Zip 

4. Physical Address 

5 41' C jZip 

5. List Prescription Department Manager (PDM) 

Name License No. Start Date Signature 

6. Contact Person TelepiSone Number 

8. Do you have 24 hour access to patient records? J 

.1 / A 
NO if no explain on separate sheet 

9. Please provide the name, address, telephone number, and permit number of your prescription drug 

wholesale distributor. 
Name _______ Telephone Number Permit Number 

°r40 
Address City State Zip 

______ D 
110. Operating Hours lOa. Provide the loft-Free Telephone number 

available six days a week for 40 hours below: 

Department Hours 

Monday-Friday: Open Close: 5 3 - 

Saturday: Open: 12-LOCE Close: 

Sunday: Open: C.LZ1&& Close: — 

DH-MQA, 1217, 08/12 
Rule 64816-28xxx, F.A.C. 

FLORIDA 

I I 

Establishment ($255.00 Fee) 

— Change of Location ($100.00 Fee) 

Change of Ownership (a new permit number wifl be issued) ($255.00 Fee) 

If applicable, list existing permit number: 

Page 1 of4 



(Page 2 of 77) 

11. Ownership Information 

a. Type of Ownership: 

_____Individual _____Corporation _____Partnership 

NOTE: IF CORPORATION OR LIMITED PARTNERSHIP YOU MUST INCLUDE WITH YOUR APPLICATION A COPY OF THE ARTICLES OF 
INCORPORATION ON FILE WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATES OFFICE WHERE THE PHARMACY IS LOCATED. 

b. Are the ayplicants, officers, directors, shareholders, members and partners over the age of ? 
Yes V No 

c. List each person having an ownership iflterest of 5 percent or greater and any person who, directly or 
indirectly. manaqes, oversees, or controls the operation of the applicant Attach a separate sheet if necessary. 

OwnerlOfficer-Title Date of Birth MailIng Address % of 

z_ 9tD. 

O6/17fi17o - ci. 

Pursuant to Section 456.0635(2), Florida Statutes, questions 12 through 18 must be answered. If you 
answer yes to any of the following questions, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details and 
submit copies of supporting documentation. 
12. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendre to, regardless of adjudication, 
a felony under Chapter 409, Chapter 817, or Chapter 893, Florida Statutes; or 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 or 42 
U.S.C. ss.1395-1396? (If no, do not answer 13.) 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was 
withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record of conviction. 

Yes No V Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is I a minor traffic 
offense for the purposes of this question.) 

13. If "yes" to 12, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 
date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes_______ No 

13a. If "yes" to 12, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes_____ No 

13b. If "yes" to 12, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida Statutes, 
has it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes____ No____ 

DH-MQA, 1217,08/12 Page 2 of 4 
Rule 64B16-28.XXX, F.A.C. 



(Page 3 of 77) 

13c. If "yes" to 12, has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or 
a drug court program that resulted in the plea for the 

felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide suppou'ting 
documentation). 

Yes No_____ 

14. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.91 3, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15.) 

Yes No 

15. If the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant has been terminated, has the applicant been reinstated and in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 
Yes No 

16. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the state 
or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 17 and 18) 

/' (If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 
Yes No / 
17. Has the applicant been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare 
program for the most recent five years? 

__________ 

No 
(II yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

18. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes 

__________ 

No 
(II yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

19. Are you currently registered or permitted in any other states? If yes, provide the state, permit type, 
and permit number for each permit. Attach a separate sheet if . 
Yes No 

State Permit Type Permit Number 
£AL-i PeX )_ 

If 
20. Has the applicant, affiliated persons, partners, officer, directors, or PDM or Consultant Pharmacist of 
Record ever owned a pharmacy? If yes, provide the name of the pharmacy, the state where the 
pharmacy is located and the status pharmacy. Attach a separate sheet if . 
Yes 

__________ 

No 

_____________(If 

yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

Pharmacy Name State Status 

21. Has any disciplinary action ever been taken against any license, permit or registration issued to the 
applicant, affiliated persons, partners, officers, directors or PDM in this state or any ? 
Yes 

__________ 

No 

___________ 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

QY"d 
DH-MQA, 1217, 08/12 Page 3 of 4 
Rule 64B16-28.XXX, F.A.C. 



(Page 4 of 77) 

22. Is there any other permit issued by the Florida Department of Health located at the physical location 
address on this application? 

__________ 

No 

___________ 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

23. Is the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? 

Yes______ No 

ALL QUESTIONS MU ST BE ANSWERED OR YOUR APPLICATION WILL BE RETURNED 

Section 456.013(1), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change in any 
circumstances or conditions stated in the application, which takes place between the initial tiling of the application and the final grant or 
denial of the license, which might affect the decision of the department. 

I certify that the statements contained in this application are true, complete, and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the 
basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations that they deem appropriate and to 
secure any additional information concerning me, and I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have or have in the 
future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board, or any municipal, county, state, or federal governmental 
agencies or units, and I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy Statutes that a Pharmacy Permit may be revoked or 
suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other thing, in connection with an application 
for a license or permit, as set forth in Section 465.01 5(2)(a), F.S, 

Under penalty of peijury I have read the foregoing document and that the facts stated in it are true. I recognize that providing false 
information may It in disci lin ry action against my license or criminal penalties. 

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE 

1 

DHMQA, 1217, 08/12 Page 4 of 4 
Rule 64B16-28.XXX, F.A.C. 

Yes 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 45 of 77) 

) 

Respondent. 

Case No, 4294 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the 

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter. 

This decision shall become effective on October 22, 2012. 

It is so ORDERED on September 21, 2012. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

By 
STANLEY C. WEISSER 
Board President 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Statement of Issues 

Against: 

ENTIRELYPETS PHARMACY 

Applicant for Community Pharmacy License 



(Page 46 of 77> 

I KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 

2 FRANKH.PACOE 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

3 JOSHUA A. ROOM 
Deputy Attorney General 

4 StateBarNo.214663 
455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000 

5 San Francisco, CA 94102-7004 
Telephone: (415) 703-1299 

6 Facsimile: (415) 703-5480 
Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE TEE 
8 

. BOARD OF.PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

9 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

10 
In the Matter of the Statement of Issues Against: Case No. 4294 

11 

ENT1RELYPETS PHARMACY STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND 
12 DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

13 
Applicant for Community Pharmacy License 

14 
. Respondent. 

15 In the interest of a prompt and speedy settlement of this matter, consistent with the public 

16 interest and the responsibility of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, the 

17 parties hereby agree to the following Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order that is to be 

18 submitted to the Board for approval and adoption in final disposition of the Statement of Issues. 

19 

20 PARTIES 

21 1. Virginia Herold (Complainant)., Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, brought 

22 this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this matter by Kamala D. Harris, 

23 Attorney General of the State of California, by Joshua A. Room, Deputy Attorney General. 

24 2. EntirelyPets Pharmacy (Respondent) is represented in this proceeding by attorney 

25 Noah E. Jussim, whose address is: MeGuireWoods LLP, 1800 Century Park East, 8th Floor, Los 

26 Angeles, CA 90067 (telephone (310) 315-8225). 

27 /1/ 

28 III 

STIPULATED SF1TLEMENT (Statement of Issues No. 4294) 



(Page 47 of 77) 

I AND CITATIONS 

2 3. On or about October 21, 2011, the Board of Pharmacy received a Community 

3 Pharmacy Permit Application from EntirelyPets Pharmacy, listing its parent entity as EntirelyPets 

4 Pharmacy, LLC, owned 90.1% by Rift Ghurnman and 9.9% by HealthyPets, Inc. (Respondent). 

5 , Inc. is in turn owned 50% by Ritu Ghumman and 50% by Mandeep Cihumman.' On 

6 or about October 14, 2011, Rift Ghumman and Mandeep Ghumman, as owner(s) and officer(s), 

7. signed a certification under penalty of peijury as to the truthfulness'of all statements, answers, 

8 and representations in the Application. The Board denied the application on January 18, 2012. 

9 4. Respondent and its affiliated entities have also received and/or been the subject(s) of 

10 four (4) citations and fines issued by the Board. All have appeals pending. These include: 

11 a. Citation No. CI 2009 41054, dated November 18, 2010, with $5,000.00 fine, 

12 alleging violations of Business and Pwfessions Code section(s) 4110 and/or 4112 (conducting a 

13 pharmacy/nonresident pharmacy without a license), 4076 and/or 4077 (dispensing in inadequately 

14 labeled container(s)), and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1716 (deviating from a 

15 written prescription). Respondent has appealed this Citation. 

16 b. Citation No. i 2009 42223, dated November 22, 2010, with a $55,000.00 fine, 

17 alleging violations of Business and Professions Code section(s) 4110 andior 4112 (conducting a 

18 pharmacy/nonresident pharmacy without a license), 4067 andlor California Code of Regulations, 

19 title 1.6, section 1761 (dispensing/furnishing Internet prescriptions issued without a good faith 

20 prior examination, with significant error, omission, irregularity, uncertainty, ambiguity or 

21 alteration, and/or not for a legitimate medical purpose). Respondent has appealed this Citation. 

22 c. Citation No. CI 2011 49563, dated December 7,2011, with a $5,000.00 fine, 

23 alleging violations of Business and Professions Code section(s) 4160 and/or 4161 (conducting a 

24 wholesaler/nonresident wholesaler without a license). Respondent has appealed this Citation. 

25 11/ 

26 Both Rita Ghumman and Macdeep Ohumman are Doctors of Veterinary Medicine, and 
both are licensed by the California Veterinary Medical Board, License No. 14261, issued to Dr. 27 Ritu Ghumman, is in inactive status, and she may not practice veterinary medicine at this time. 

28 
License No. 12996, issued to Macdeep Ohuinman, is active and unrestricted at this time. 

2 

STIPULATED SEITLEMBNT (Statement of Issues No. 4294) 



(Page 48 of 77) 

d. Citation No. CI 2011 49569, dated December 7, 2011, with a $5,000.00 fine, 

2 alleging violations of Business and Professions Code section(s) 4160 and/or 4161 (conducting a 

3 wholesaler/nonresident wholesaler without a license). Respondent has appealed this Citation. 

4 This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is also intended to serve as a settlement 

of all pending appeals and other matters pertaining to the above-listed citations and fines. 

6 

7 JURISDICTION 

8 4. Statement of Issues No. 4294 was filed before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), and is 

9 currently pending against Respondent. The Statement of Issues and all other statutorily required 

10 documents were properly served on Respondent on May 31, 2012. A copy of Statement of issues 

I No. 4294 is attached as exhibit A and incdrporated herein by reference. 

12 

13 ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

4 5. Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the 

is charges and allegations in Statement of Issues No. 4294, and in each of the above-listed citations. 

16 Respondent has also carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of, 

17 this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order. 

18 6. Respondent is fully aware of its legal rights in this matter, including the right to a 

19 hearing on the charges and allegations in the Statement of Issues or in any pending citations; the 

20 right to be represented by counsel at its own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the 

21 against them; the right to present evidence and to on its own behalf; the right to 

22 the issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of 

23 documents; the right to reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other 

24 rights accorded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 

25 7. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and 

26 every right set forth above. 

27 8. Respondent further withdraws any notices of appeal or other requests for hearing on 

28 the above-listed citations, and agrees that those citations will now be final as issued. 

3 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (Statement of Issues No. 4294) 



(Page 49 of 77) 

1 CULPABILITY 

2 9. Respondent, by its authorized representative, admits the truth of each and every 

3 charge and allegation in Statement of Issues No. 4294. Respondent further agrees that its 

4 Community Phannacy Permit Application is subject to denial, and agrees to be bound by the 

5 Board of Pharmacy (Board)'s probationary terms as set forth in the Disciplinary Order below. 

6 

7 RESERVATION 

8 10. Admissions made by Respondent herein are only for the purposes of this proceeding, 

9 or any other proceedings in which the Board of Pharmacy or other professional licensing agency 

10 is involved, and shall not be admissible in any other criminal or civil proceeding. 

11 

12 CONTINGENCY 

13 11. This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board of Pharmacy. Respondent 

14 understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Board of Pharmacy may 

15 communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement, without notice to 

16 or participation by Respondent or its counsel. By signing the stipulatiGn, Respondent understands 

17 and agrees that they may not withdraw its agreement or seek to rescind the. stipulation prior to the 

18 time the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt this stipulation as its 

19 Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or 

20 effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the parties, 

21 and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter. 

22 12. This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the part.ies to be an 

23 integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement 

24 with regard to the Statement of Issues and the above-listed citations. As to those matters, this 

25 written agreement supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, 

26 discussions, negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and 

27 Disciplinary Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed 

28 except by a writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties. 

4 

STIPULATED SEITLEMENT (Statement of Issues No. 4294) 



(Page 50 of 77) 

1 13, The parties understand and agree that facsimile.copies of this stipulation, including 

2 facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals. 

3 14. In consideration of the foregoing, the parties agree that the Board may, without 

4 further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following Disciplinary Order; 

5 

6 fflSCIPLINARY ORDER 

7 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that, upon satisfaction of statutory and regulatory requirements 

8 for issuance thereof, including but not limited to submission of documentation demonstrating the 

9 compliance of its ownership structure(s) with Business and Professions Code section 4111 as 

10 specified below, a Pharmacy License shall be issued by the Board of Pharmacy to EntirelyPets 

11 Pharmacy (Respondent), and immediately revoked. Revocation is stayed and the license is placed 

12 on probation for five (5) years. on the terms and conditions detailed below. 

13 1. Compliance with Business and Professions Code section 4111 

14 Prior to issuance of the license, and as a condition precedent to issuance of the license and 

15 commencement of the period of probation, Respondent shall gather or prepare, and submit to the 

16 Board, documentation demonstrating that its ownership does not violate Business and Professions 

17 Code section 4111, i.e., that no person or persons authorized to prescribe or write a prescription in 

18 California: is a sole or controlling owner of Respondent; shares a community or other financial 

19 interest in a sole or controlling ownership of Respondent; controls or owns a 10 percent or greater 

20 share of a corporation or other entity that is a sole or controlling owner of Respondent; or shares a 

21 community or other financial.interest in a greater than 10 percent share of a corporation or other 

22 entity that is a sole or controlling owner of Respondent. Respondent shall submit such materials 

23 and documentation as are requested by the Board or its designee, and the Board or its designee 

24 shall have sole discretion to determine whether satisfactory documentation has been submitted. 

25 The documentation shall include, at least, affidavits signed under penalty of perjury by all owners 

26 and officers of Respondent or Respondent's owners or parent entities, stating that he or she: (a) is 

27 not now authorized to prescribe 'in California, and/or (b) does not have an ownership share, either 

28 directly or through community or other shared interest, sufficient to trigger section 4111. 

5 

STIPULATED SETT'LEMENT (Statement of No. 4294) 



(Page 51 of 77) 

All such affidavits shall be supported by documentation demOnstrating the accuracy of the 

2 statements made therein. The Board or its designee may require additional documentation. 

3 At no point during its licensure by the Board, including afterthe expiration of the period of 

4 probation, may Respondent's ownership violate this ownership 2 Pursuant to Business 

.5 and Professions Code section 4111, subdivision (o), the Board or its designee may require any 

6 information that it deems reasonably necessary for the enforcement of this section, including but 

7 not limited to supplemental affidavits and documentation required at each renewal. 

8 2. Civil Penalty 

9 Respondent shall pay to the Board a civil penalty of $50,000.00. Payments shall be made 

10 as follows: Prior to issuance of the license, and as a condition precedent to issuance of the license 

11 and commencement of the period of probation, Respondent shall make a payment of $5,000.00. 

12 Thereafter, once probation commences, Respondent shall make sixteen (16) quarterly payments 

13 of $2,812.50 each. Payment shall be made in full withinfour (4) years of the start of probation. 

14 Respondent understands and agrees that this civil penalty is an administrative fine pursuant 

15 to Ii U.S.C. § 523(a)(7), and is non-dischargeable in bankruptcy. Respondent further 

16 understands and agrees that the filing of bankruptcy by Respondent shall not relieve Respondent 

17 of the obligation to pay the balance of the civil penalty to the Board. 

18 Payment of this civil penalty shall satisfy all of the assessed, outstanding, pending, and 

19 appealed fines included in the above-listed citations. Upon full payment of the civil penalty, all 

20 of the above-listed citations shall be deemed satisfactorily resolved, and shall be so represented in 

21 any future public disclosure of those citations by the Board. 

22 Failure to timely pay this civil penalty shall be considered a violation of probation. Further, 

23 absent prior written approval by the Board or its designee, Respondent may not successfully 

24 complete probation until this amount is paid in full. 

25 . 2 This shall include that any owner avoiding the prohibition(s) in section 4111 by making 
his or her license to prescribe in California inactive or otherwise not an authorization to prescnbe, 

26 shall at no time during his or her ownership of Respondent reactivate that license or have his/her 
authorization to prescribe reinstated. Should any person meeting the ownership threshold(s) in 

27 section 4111 hereafter become authorized to prescribe in California, he or she must immediately 

28 
divest and/or transfer his or her ownership share to come into compliance with section 4111. 

6 

STIPULATED SEULEMENT (Statement of issues No. 4294) 



(Page 52 of 77) 

1 3. Obey AU Laws 

2 Respondent shall obey all state and federal laws and regulations. Respondent shall report to 

3 the Board, in writing, within seventy-two (72) hours of such occurrence, any of the following 

4 with regard to Respondent or any of its owners, officers, managers, or employees: 

5 • an arrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any provision of the 
Pharmacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and federal controlled 

6 substances laws 

7 • a plea of guilty or nob contendre in any state or federal ôriminal proceeding to any 
criminal complaint, information or indictment 

8 
• a conviction of any crime 

9 
• discipline, citation, or other administrative action filed by any state or federal agency 

10 which involves Respondent's wholesaler license or which is related to the practice of 
pharmacy or the manufacturing, obtaining, handling or distributing, billing, or 

ii charging for any drug, device or controlled substance. 

12 Failure to timely report any such occurrence shall be considered a violation of probation. 

13 4. Engagement of Consulthnt 

14 During probation, Respondent shall, at its expense, retain an independent consultant who 

15 shall be responsible for reviewing phannacy operations on a monthly basis for compliance by 

16 Respondent with state and federal laws and regulations governing the practice of pharmacy and 

17 for compliance by the pharmacist in charge for Respondent with the obligations of a pharmacist 

18 in charge. The consultant shall be a pharmacist licensed by and not on probation with the Board 

19 and whose name shall be submitted to the Board or its designee, for prior approval, within thirty 

20 (30) days of the effective date of this decision. Failure to timely retain, seek approval of, or 

21 ensure timely reporting by the consultant shall be considered a violation of probation 

22 5. Interview with the Board 

23 Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, an owner or officer of Respondent shall appear in 

24 person for interviews with the Board or its designee, at intervals and locations as determined by 

25 the Board or its designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior notification 

26 to Board staff, or failure to appear for two (2) or more scheduled interviews with the Board or its 

27 designee during the period of probation, shall be considered a violation of probation. 

28 III 

7 

STIPULATED SEITLEMENT (Statement of Issues No. 4294) 



(Page 53 of 77) 

1 6. Report to the Board 

2 Respondent, through an owner or officer, shall report to the Board quarterly, on a schedule 
3 as directed by the Board or its designee. The report shall be made either in person or in writing, 
4 as directed. Among other requirements, the reporting owner or officer shall state in each report 
5 under penally of perjury whether there has been compliance with all the terms and conditions of 
6 probation. Failure to submit timely reports in a formas directed shall be considered a violation of 
7 probation. Any period(s) of delinquency in submission of reports as directed may be added to the 
8 period of probation. Moreover, if a final probation report is not made as directed, probation shall 
9 be automatically extended until such time as the final report is made and accepted by the Board. 

10 7. Cooperate with Board Staff 

11 Respondent owner shall cooperate with the board's inspection program and with the board's 

12 monitoring and investigation of respondent's compliance with the terms and conditions of their 

13 probation. Failure to cooperate shall be considered a violation of probation. 

14 8. Probation Monitoring Costs 

15 Respondent owner shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as determined 

16 by the board each and every year of probation. Such costs shall be payable to the board on a 

17 schedule as directed by the board or its designee. Failure to pay such costs by the deadline(s) as 

18 directed shall be considered a violation of probation. 

19 9. Status of License 

20 Respondent shall, at all times while on probation, maintain current licensure with the 

21 Board. If Respondent submits an application to the Board, and the application is approved, for a 

22 change of location, change of permit or change of ownership, the Board shall retain continuing 

23 jurisdiction over the license, and Respondent shall remain on probation as determined by the 

24 Board. Failure to maintain current licensure shall be considered a violation of probation. 

25 If Respondent's license expires or is cancelled by operation of law or otherwise at any time 

26 during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof or otherwise, upon renewal or 

27 reapplication Respondent's license shall be subject to all terms and conditions of this probation 

28 not previously satisfied. 

B 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (Statement of Issues No. 4294) 



(Page 54 of 77) 

4:1 

1 10. Notice to Employees 

2 Respondent shall, upon or before the effective date of this decision, ensure that all 

3 employees involved in permit operations are made aware of all the terms and conditions of 

4 probation, either by posting a notice of the terms and conditions, circulating such notice, or both. 

5 If the notice required by this provision is posted, it shall be posted in a prominent place and shall 

6 remain posted throughout the probation period. Respondent shall ensure that any employees 

7 hired or used after the effective date of this decision are made aware of the terms and conditions 

8 of probation by posting a notice, circulating a notice, or both. Additionally, Respondent shall 

9 submit wr tten notification to the Board, within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this 

10 that this term has been satisfied. Failure to submit such notification to the Board shall 

11 be considered a violation of probation. 

12 TM as used in this provision includes all full-time, part-time, 
volunteer, temporary, and relief employees and independent contractors employed or 

13 hired at any time during probation: 

14 11. Posted Notice of Probation 

15 Respondent shall prominently post a probation notice provided by the Board in a place 

16 conspicuous and readable.to the public. The probation notice shall remain posted during the 

17 entire period of probation. 

18 Respondent shall not, directly or indirectly, engage in any conduct or make any statement 

19 which is intended to mislead or is likely to have the effect of misleading any patient, customer, 

20 member of the public, or other person(s) as to the nature of and reason(s) for the probation. 

21 Failure to post such notice shall be considered a violation of probation. 

22 12. Owners and Knowledge of the Law 

23 Respondent shall provide, within thirty (30) days after the effective date of this decision, 

24 signed and dated statements from its owners, including any owner or holder percent (10%) 

25 or more of the interest in Respondent or Respondent's stock, and any officer, stating under 

26 penalty of perjury that said individuals have read and are familiar with state and federal laws and 

27 regulations governing the practice of pharmacy. The failure to timely provide said statements 

28 under penalty of perjury shall be considered a violation of probation. 

9 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (Statement of'Issues No. 4294) 



(Page 55 of 77) 

4:1 

1 13. License Surrender While on 

2 Following the effective date of this decision, should Respondent discontinue business, 

3 Respondent may tender the premises license to the. Board for surrender. The Board or its 

4 designee shall have the discretion whether to grant the request for surrender or take any other 

5 action it deems appropriate and reasonable. Upon formal acceptance of the surrender of the 

6 license, Respondent will no longer be subject to the terms and conditions of probation. This 

7 surrender constitutes a record of discipline and shall become a part of the Respondent's license 

8 history with the Board. 

9 Upon acceptance of the surrender, Respondent shall relinquish the premises wall and 

10 renewal license to the Board within ten (ID) days of notification by the Board that the surrender is 

ii accepted. Respondent shall further submit a completed Discontinuance of Business form 

12 according to Board guidelines and shall notify the Board of the records and inventory transfer. 

13 Neither Respondent nor its officers or owners may apply for any new Board license for 

14 three (3) years from the effective date of the surrender. Any applicant shall meet all requirements 

15 applicable to the license sought as of the date the application is submitted to the Board. 

16 Respondent further stipulates that any applicant shall reimburse the Board for its costs of 

17 investigation and prosecution prior to the acceptance of the surrender. — 

18 14. Violation of Probation 

19 If Respondent has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the Board shall 

20 have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent's license, and probation shall be automatically 

21 extended, until all terms and conditions have been satisfied or the Board has taken other action as 

22 deemed appropriate to treat the failurc to comply as a violation of probation, to terminate 

23 probation, and to impose the penalty that was stayed. 

24 if Respondent violates probation in any respect, the Board, after giving Respondent notice 

25 and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the disciplinary order that 

26 was stayed. If a petition to revoke probation or an accusation is filed against Respondent during 

27 probation, the Board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the period of probation shall be 

28 automatically extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided. 

10 

STiPULATED SETTLEMENT (Statoment of issues No. 4294) 





15. Completion of Probation 

Upon written notice by the Board or its designee indicating successful completion of 
probation, Respondent's license will be fully restored. 

ACCEPTANCE 

I have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully 

discussed it with my attorney, Noah H. Jussim. I understand the stipulation and the effect it will 

have on my Community Pharmany Permit Application, and on the above-listed citations that are 

also the subject of and resolved by this agreement. I enter into this Stipulated Settlement and 

Disciplinary Order voluntaiily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the 

Decision and Order of the Board of Pharmacy. 

DATED: 

Ritu Ghumman, for 
ENTIRELYPETS PHARMACY 
Respondent 

I have read and fully discussed with the executive officer(s) for Respondent EntirelyPets 

Pharmacy the terms and conditions and other matters contained in the above Stipulated' 

Settlement and Disciplinary Order. I approve its form and content. 

DATED: 

NOAH E. JUSSIM 
Attorney for Respondent 

ENDORSEMENT 

The foregoing Siipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully 

submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy of the Department of Consumer Affairs. 

Dated: 

Attorney General of California 
FRANK H. PAC0E 
pyervising Deputy Attorney General 

S AA.ROOM 
/ Attorney General 
VAttorneys for Complainant 

(Page 57 of 77) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 SF2012204087; 4054861 7.doc 

11 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (Statement of Issues No. 4294) 



(Page 58 77) 

I:! 

Exhibit A 

Statement of Issues No. 4294 



(Page 59 of 77) 

1 KAMALA D. 
Attorney General of California 

2 FRANK H. PACOE 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

3 JOSHUA A. 
Deputy Attorney General 

4 StateBarNo.214663 
455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000 

5 Sari Francisco, CA 94J 02-7004 
Telephone: (415) 703-1299 

6 Facsimile: (415) 703-5480 
Alwrneys for Complainani 

7 

BEFORE TDE 
8 BOARI) OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
9 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

10 

In the Matter of the Statement of Issues Against: Case No. 4294 
11 

ENTIRELYPETS PHARMACY 
12 

13 
Applicant for Community Pharmacy License STATEMENT OF ISSUES 

I 
Respondent 

15 Complainant alleges: 

16 PAkTIES 

17 1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Statement of issues solely in her official 

18 capacity as the Executive Officer of the Boatd of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs. 

19 2. On or aboutOctober2l, , the Board of Pharmacy received a Community 

20 Pharmacy Permit Application from EntirelyPets Pharmacy, listing its parent entity as EntirelyPets 

21 Pharmacy, LLC, owned 90.1% by Ritu Ghumman and 9.9% by HealthyPets, me. (Respondent). 

22 flealthyPets, Inc. is in turn owned 50% by Ritu Ghumman and 50% by Ohumman.' On 

23 or about October 14, 2011, Ritu Ghumman and Mandeep Ghumman, as owner(s) and officer(s), 

24 signed a certification under penalty of perjury as to the truthfulness of all statements, answers, 

25 and represdntations in the Application. The Board denied the application on January 18, 2012. 

26 'Both Ritii Ghurnman and Mandeep Ghumman are Doctors of Veterinary Medicine, and 
both are licensed by the California Veterinary Medical Board. License No. 14261, issued to Dr. 27 Ritu Ghumman, is in inactive status, and she may not practice veterinary medicine at this time. 

28 
License No. 12996, issued to Dr. Ghurnman, is active and unrestricted at this time. 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES (Case No. 4294) 



(Page 60 of 77) 

AND STATUTORY/REGULATORy PROVISIONS 

2 3. This Statement of Issues is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), 

3 Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section 

4 references are to the Business and Professions Code (Code) unless otherwise indicated, 

5 4. Section of the Code states, in pertinent part: 

6 "(a) A board may deny a license regulated by this code on the grounds that the applicant 

7 has one of the following: 

g . "(1) Been convicted of a crime. . .. Any action which a board. is permitted to take 

9 following the establishment of a conviction may be taken.. . irrespective of a subsequent order 

10 under the provisions of Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code. 

11 "(2) Done any act involving dishonesty, fraud or deceit with the intent to substantially 

12 benefit himself or another, or substantially injure another; OT 

13 "(3) Done any act which if done by a licentiate of the business or profession in 

14 question, would be grounds for suspension or revocation of license. 

15 "The board may deny a. license pursuant to this subdivision only if the crime or act is 

16 substantially related•to the qualifications, functions or duties of the business or profession for 

17 which application is made." 

18 5. Section 4300, subdivision (c), of the Code states: 

19 "(c) The board may refuse a license to any applicant guilty of unprofessional conduct. The 

20 board may, in its sole discretion, issue a probationary license to any applicant for a license who is 

21 guilty of unprofessional conduct and who has met all other requirements for licensure.. . 

22 6. Section 43.01 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that "unprofessional conduct" is 

23 defined to include, but not be limited to, any of the 

24 (f) The commission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or 

25 corruption, whether the act is committed In the course of relations as a licensee or otherwise, and 

26 whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not. 

27 U) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, of any other state, or of the United 

28 States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs. 

2 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES (Case No. 4294) 



(E'age 61 of 77) 

1 (o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting or abetting the 

2. violation of, or conspiring to violate, any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable 

3 federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including regulations established by 

4 the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency, 

7. Section 4037 of the Code defines "pharmacy" to mean and include any area, place, or 

6 premises licensed by the Board wherein the profession ofpharrnacy is practiced, prescriptions are 

7 compounded, controlled substances, dangerous drugs, or dangerous devices are stored, possessed, 

8 prepared, manufactured, derived, compounded, or repackaged, and from which the controlled 

9 substances, dangerous drugs, or dangerous devices are furnished, sold, or dispensed at retail. 

10 8 Section 4043 of the Code defmes "wholesaler" to mean and include any person/entity 

1 that acts as a wholesale merchant, broker, jobber, customs broker, reverse distributor, agent, or a 

12 nonresident wholesaler, who sells for resale, or negotiates for distribution, or takes possession of, 

13 any drug or device included in Section 4022 (dangerous drugs and dangerous devices). 

14 9. Section 4067 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that no person or entity shall 

15 dispense or furnish, or cause to be or furnished, dangerous drugs or dangerous devices, 

16 as defined in Section 4022 of the Code, on the Internet for delivery to any person in this state 

17 without a prescription issued pursuant to a good faith prior examination of a human or animal for 

1.8 whom the prescription is meant if the person or entity either knew or reasonably should have 

19 known that the prescription was not issued pursuant to a good faith prior examination of a human 

20 or animal, or if the person or entity did not act in accordance with Section 1761 of Title 16 of the 

21 California Code of Regulations. A "good faith prior examination" includes the requirements for a 

22 and surgeon in Section 2242 of the Code and the requirements for vaterinarian in 

23 Section 2032.1 of Title 16 of the California Code of Regulations. 

24 10. Section 4110 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that no person shall conduct a 

25 pharmacy in California without first obtaining a license issued by the Board. 

26 11. Section 4112 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that no person/entity located 

27 outside the state may ship, mail, or deliver controlled substances, dangerous drugs, or dangerous 

28 devices into California without first obtaining a nonresident pharmacy license from the Board. 

3 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES (Casc No. 4294) 



(Page 62 of 77) 

1 12. Section 4160 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that no person/entity may act as 

2 a wholesaler of a dangerous drug or device without first obtaining a license from the Board. 

3 13. Section 4161 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that no person/entity located 

4 outside the state may ship, sell, mail, or deliver dangerous drugs or dangerous devices into this 

5 state, or sell, broker, or distribute dangerous drugs or dangerous devices within this state, without 

6 first obtaining a nonresident wholesaler license issued by the Board. 

7 14. Section 4076 of the Code requires, in pertinent part, that a pharmacist shall not 

8 dispense a prescription except in a container that meets the requirements of state and fbderal law 

9 and is correctly labeled with the information specified by 'that section. 

10 15. Section 4077 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that except under circumstances 

I I not relevant here, no person shall dispense any dangerous drug except in a container correctly 

12 labeled with the information required by section 4076. 

.13 16. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1716, states in.pertinent part: 

'14 "Pharmacists shall not deviate from the requirements of a prescription except upon the prior 

15 consent of the prescriber or to select the drug product in accordance with Section 4073 

16 17. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1761,.provides inpertinent part, that 

17 no pharmacist shall compound or dispense any prescription which contains any significant error, 

18 omission, irregularity, uncertainty, ambiguity or alteration, shall contact the prescriber to obtain 

19 the information needed to 'validate the prescription, and even afler conferring with the prescriber, 

20 shall not compound or dispense a controlled substance prescription where the pharmacist knows 

2.1 or has objective reason to know the prescription was not issued for a legitimate medical purpose. 

22 18: Section 4111, subdivision (a), of the Code provides that the Board shall not issue or 

23 renew a license to conduct a pharmacy to a person or persons authorized to prescribe or write a 

24 prescription within the State of California, to any person or persons sharing a community or other 

25 financial interest with such prescriber, or to any corporation that is controlled by, or in which 10 

26 percent or more of the stock is owned by, such a prescriber or any person with a community or 

27 other financial interest in common with such a prescriber. 

28 I/I . 

4 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES (Case Nc, 4294) 



CITATION AND FINE AUTHORITY 

19. Section 125.9 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may establish, by 

regulation, a system for issuance to a licensee of a citation to contain an order of abatement or an 

brder to pay an administrative fine assessed by the Board, or both, and the system shall include a 

provision whereby failure of a licensee to pay a fine within 30 days of the date of assessment by a 

citation not being appealed, may result in disciplinary action being taken. 

20. Section 148 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may establish, by 

regulation, a similar system for issuance of citation to an unlicensed person/entity acting in the 

capacity of a licensee or registrant under the jurisdiction of the Board. 

21. Section 4314 of the Code similarly provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may 

issue citations containing fines and orders of abatement for any violation of the Pharmacy Law. 

22. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1775 et seq. provide, in pertinent 

part, that the Executive Officer for the Board may issue citations containing either or both a fine 

and an order of abatement for any violation of the Pharmacy Law. 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

23. During the events and time periods described in the following, Respondent and/or its 

affiliated entities were acting.under, by and/or through entity names including HealthyPets, 

EntirelyPets.com, and/or Pet Pharmacy Plus; "Respondent" shall refer to all of these entities. 

24, On or about May 15, 2009, Respondent dispensed/mailed RX 6205953, a prescription 

container containing Metacam 1.5 mg/mI (a trade name for the generic drug meloxicam), a 

dangerous drug, to a California (for a feline patient). Respondent used addresses both 

within and outside California. Respondent was not licensed by the Board as a pharmacy. The 

container label did not include the prescriber name or the name and address of the dispensing 

pharmacy. The prescription called for Metacam .5 mg/mI instead of the dispensed Metacam 1.5 

mg/ml, and the directions for use were written as "eight pound dose by mouth once daily" but 

were printed on the container label as being "use as directed by your 2 
2 These allegations are also the subject of Citation No. I 2009 41054, issued November 

18, 2010. Respondent has appealed that Citation, and that appeal is now pending. 

(Page 63 of 77) 

I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

12 

13 

14 

5 

16 

17 

18, 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

5. 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES (Ca.w No. 4294) 



(Page 64 of 77) 

1 25. On or about July 29 and July 30, 2009, Respondent dispensed/mailed RX 6205953, a 

2 prescription container containing Soloxine .1 mg, and RX 6227612, a prescription container 

3 containing Soloxine .8 mg (generic: levothyroxine), a dangerous drug, to a California customer 

4 (canine patient). Respondent used addresses both within and outside California. Respondent was 

5 not licensed by the Board as a pharmacy. The prescriptions were dispensed and/or transacted via 

6 the Internet and/or without a prescription issued pursuant to a good faith prior examination and/or 

7 the prescriptions contained a significant error, omission, irregularity, uncertainty, ambiguity or 

8 alteration and/or there was reason to know they were not issued for a legitimate medical 3 
9 26. Between on or about September 25, 2009 and on or about October 27, 2009, using an 

10 address outside of California, Respondent sold, traded, or otherwise transferred dangerous drugs 

Ii to a pharmacy licensed by the Board located in 4 
12 27. Between on or about February 24, 2010 and on or about March 4, 2010, using an 

13 address in California, Respondent sold, traded, or otherwise transferred dangerous drugs to a 

14 pharmacy licensed by the Board located in 5 
15 FIRST CAUSE P0k DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

16 (Unlicensed Practice of Pharmacy) 

17 28. Respondent's application is subject to denial under the following of the 

18 Code: 4110 and/or 4112; 480(a)(3) by reference to (j), (o), 4110 and/or 4112; or 4300(c) by 

19 reference to 4301 (o), 4110 and/or 4112; in that Respondent, as described in paragraph(s) 24 

20 and/or 25 above, acted as a pharmacy without a pharmacy or nonresident pharmacy license, and 

21 thereby violated the Pharmacy Law; did acts constituting cause for discipline against a license; 

22 engaged in unprofessional conduct; violated statutes regulating controlled substances/ dangerous 

23 drugs; aiid/or violated/attempted to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisted or abetted violation 

24 of, or conspired to violate, federal or state laws and regulations governing pharmacy.. 

25 These allegations are also the subject of Citation No. Cl 2009 42223, issued November 
22, 2010. Respondent has appealed that Citation, and that appeal is now, pending. 

26 These allegations are also the subject of Citation No. Cl 2011 issued December 
7, 2011. Respondent has appealed that Citation, and that appeal is now pending. 

.27 These allegations are also the subject of Citation No. CI 2011 49563, issued December 

28 
2011. Respondent has appealed that Citation, and that appeal is now pending. 

6 

STATEMENT OF iSSUES (Case No. 4294) 



(Page 65 of 77) 

1 SECOND CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

2 (Inadequate Labeling and/or Deviation from Prescription) 

3 29. Respondent's application is subject to denial under the following section(s) of the 

4 Code and applicable regulations: 4076, 4077, and/or California Code of Regulations, title 16, 

5 section 1716; 80(a)(3) by reference to (j), (o),.4076, 4077, and/or California Code of 

6 Regulations, title 16, section 1716; or 4300(c) by reference to 4301(j), (o), 4076, 4077, and/or 

7 California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1716; in that Respondent, as described in 

8 paragraph 24 above, failed to include prescriber name, pharmacy name and address, and correct 

9 directions for use on the prescription container label, and/or deviated from the prescription, and 

10 thereby violated the Pharmacy Law; did acts constituting cause for discipline against a license; 

I engaged in unprofessional conduct; violated statutes regulating controlled substances I dangerous 

12 drugs; and/or violated/attempted to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisted or abetted violation 

13 or conspired to violate, federal or state laws and regulations governing pharmacy. 

14 THIRD CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

15 (Improper Dispensing Pursuant to Internet Prescriptions) 

16 30. Respondent's application is subject to denial under the following section(s) of the 

17 Code and applicable regulations: 4067 and/or California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 

19 1761; 480(a)(3) by reference to 4301(j), (o), 4067 and/or California Code of Regulations, title 16, 

19 section 1761; Or 4300(c) by reference to (j), (o), 4067 and/or California Code of Regulations) 

20 title 16, section 1761; in that Respondent, as described in paragraph 25 above, dispensed and/or 

21 trarisacted one or more prescriptions via the Internet and/or without a prescription issued pursuant 

22 to a good faith prior examination and/or the prescriptions contained a significant error, omission, 

23 irregularity, uncertainty, ambiguity or alteration and/or there was reason to know they were not 

24 issued for a legitimate medical purpose, and thereby violated the Law; did acts 

25 constituting cause for discipline against a license; engaged in unprofessional cortduct violated 

26 statutes regulating controlled substances I dangerous drugs; and/or violatediatterhpted to violate, 

27 directly or indirectly, or assisted or abetted violation of, or conspired to violate, federal or state 

28 laws and regulations governing pharmacy. 

7 

I STATEMENF OF ISSUES (Case No. 4294) 



(Page 66 of 77) 

1 FOURTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

2 (Unlicensed Wholesaling) 

3 31. Respondent's application is subject to denial under the following section(s) of the 

4 Code: 4160 and/or4l6l; 480(a)(3) byreference to 4301(j), (o), 4160 andIor4I6l; 4300(c) by 

5 reference to (j), (o), 4161 andlor 4161; in that Respondent, as described in paragraph(s) 26 

6 and/or 27 above, acted as a wholesaler without a wholesaler or nonresident wholesaler license, 

7 and thereby violated the Pharmacy Law; did acts constituting cause for discipline against a 

8 license; engaged in unprofessional conduct; violated statutes regulating conirolled substances / 

9 dangerous drugs; and/or violated/attempted to violate; directly or indirectly, or assisted or abetted 

violation of, or conspired to violate, federal or state laws and regulations governing pharmacy. 

ii FIFTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

12 (Dishonesty, Fraud, Deceit, or Corruption) 

13 32. Respondent's application is subject to denial under the following section(s) of the 

14 Code: 480(a)(2); 4301(f); 480(a)(3) by reference to 4301(f), (j), and/or or 4300(c) by 

• 15 reference to 4301(f), (j), and/or (o); in that Respondent, by the conduct described in paragraphs 

16 23 to 31, did acts involving dishonesty, fraud or deceit with intent to substantially benefit itself or 

• 17 another, or substantially injure another; did icts involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, 

18 deceit, or corruption; did acts constituting causes for discipline against a license; engaged in 

19 unprofessional conduct; violated statutes regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs; 

20 and/or violated/attempted to violate, directly or indirectly, assisted/abetted violation of, or 

21 conspired to violate, federal or state laws and regulations governing pharmacy. 

22 SIXTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

23 (Unprofessional Conduct) 

24 33. Respondent's application is subject to denial under the following section(s) of the 

25 Code: 4300(c); 480(a)(3) by reference to 4301; and/or 4300(c) by reference to 4301, in that 

26 Respondent, by the conduct described in paragraphs 23 to 32, engaged in unprofessional cOnduct. 

27 /1/ 

• 28 III 

8 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES (Case No. 4294) 



(Page 67 of 77) 

1 . OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

2 34. As additional consideration(s) in determining whether RespondenVs application is 

• 3 subject to denial, Complainant further alleges the following: 

4 a. Section. 4111 of the Code prohibits issuance or renewal of a license to conduct a 

• 5 pharmacy to a.person or persons authorized to prescribe or write a prescription in California, to 

6 any person or persons sharing a community or other financial interest with such prescriber, or to 

7 any corporation controlled by, or in which 10% or more of the stock is owned by, a prescriber or 

g any person with a community or other financial interest in common with such a prescriber; 

9 . b. Dr. Ritu Ghuxnman, D.V.M., License No. 14261, is a veterinarian licensed by 

10 the California Veterinary Medical Board. Her license is in inactive status, and therefore she may. 

11 not practice veterinary medicine in California at this time. ( 

12 c. Dr. Macdeep Ghuimnan, ,License No. 12996, is a veterinarian licensed 

13 by the California Veterinary Medical Board. Bis license is active and unrestricted.át this time. 

14 d. Mandeep Ghunnnan and Ritu Ghumman are husband and 

• 15 . . PRAYER 

• 16 . WHEREPORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, 

17 and that following the hearing, the Board of Phariliacy issue a decision: 

i 8 1. Denying the Conmninity Pharmacy Permit Application received from EntirelyPets 

19 Pharmacy, listing its parent entity asEntirelyPets Pharmacy, LLC, owned 90.1% by Ritu 

20 •Ghumman and 9.9% by Healthy?ets, Inc., where HealthyPets, Inc. is in turn owned 50% by Dr. 

21 RItu Ghurnman, D.V.M. and 50% by Dr. Mandeep Ghumman, D.V.M. (Respondent); 

• .22 2, . Taking suoh tther and further action is deemed necessary prnper, 

• 

/ 4 
24 

. vmcrn.a HEROLD 
Exe uti Officer 

25 
• soar of Pharmacy 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
26 State. of California 

27 

28 

• . -. STATEMENT OP ISSUES (Case No. 4294) 



(Page 68 of 77) 

• 

CITATION AND FINE I 2009 41054 



(Page 69 of 77) 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

CITATION AND FINE 

Citation Number Name, License No 

_________ 

JURISDICTION Bus & Prof Codes 4005, CCR, title 16, §1775, — - - - 

OFFENSE 
No person shall conduct a pharmacy in the 

State of California unless he or she has 
obtained a license from the board/Nonresident 

pharmacy: Registration required/All 
nonresident pharmacies shall register with the 

_______________ 

board... 
Variation from prescnptionlDispensing $2,000.00 

dangerous drugs in an incorrectly labeled 
contal nor/Prescription Container - 

Requirements for Labeling; Container must 
moot requirements of law with proper labeling, 
Drug name or active ingredients; Directions for 

use; Name and address of pharmacy, and 

Unlicensed Activity: Business and Professions Code section 4110 subd. (a) said no 
person shall conduct a pharmacy in the state of California unless he or she has obtained a 
license from the Board and Business and Professions Code section 4112 subd. (a) said 
any pharmacy located outside of this state that ships, mails, or delivers, in any manner, 
controlled substances, dangerous drugs, or dangerous devices into this state shall be 
considered a nonresident pharmacy and 4112 subd. (b) said all nonresident pharmacies 
shall register with the Board. .com was not in compliance with the laws. 
Specifically, on 5/15/2009 EntirelyPets.com located at an unknown address, using Postal 
Mail Box #384 at 710 South 13th 1 Suite 900, in Norfolk, NE 68701 and product 
returns address 43450 Mintwood Street in Fremont, CA 94538, and which was part of 
HealthyPets Inc. located at 34501 Seventh Street in Union City, CA 94587, mailed RX 
6205953, a prescription for Metacam 1.5mg/mi, to a California customer using the 
pharmacy name Pet Pharmacy Plus, when neither EntirelyPets.com nor Pet Pharmacy 
Plus were licensed as a California pharmacy or a California nonresident pharmacy. This 
was a violation of pharmacy law. 

ViOLATION CODE SECTIONI 
Bus. & Prof. Code § 4110 

subd. (a)lBus. & Prof. Code 
ll2subd.(a)&(b) 

AMT OF FINE 
$3,000.00 

CCR, Title 16, § 171 6/Bus. & 
Prof. Code § 4077 subd. 
(a}IBus. & Prof. Code § 
4076 subd. (a)(1)(2)(6) 

CONDUCT: 



(Page 70 77) 

Medication Error: California Code of Regulations section 1716 prohibited the 

variation from a prescription without prescriber authorization and Business and Professions 

Code section 4077 subd. (a) required a prescription to be dispensed in a container labeled 

with the information required in Business and Professions Code section 4076 subd. (a)(1) 

the name of the prescriber, (2) the directions for use, and (6) the name and address of the 

pharmacy. EntirelyPets.com was not in compliance with the laws. Specifically, on 

5/15/2009 EntlrelyPets.com located at an unknown address, using Postal Mail Box #384 at 

710 'South 13th Street, Suite 900, in Norfolk, NE 68701 and product returns address 43450 
Mintwood Street in Fremont, CA 94538, and which was part of HealthyPets Inc. located at 

34501 Seventh Street in Union City, CA 94587, dispensed RX 6205953 for Armstrong 

feline as Metacam I instead of the prescribed Meta'cam .5mg/mi using pharmacy 

name Pet Pharmacy Plus. the directions for use on the label said to "use as 

directed by your veterinarian" instead of the prescribed "eight pound dose by mouth once 

• daily." Also, the prescriber name was missing, and the correct name and address of the 

pharmacy was . This was a violation of pharmacy law. 

I 



(Page 72. of 77) 

CITATION AND FINE 
CI 2009 42223 



(Page 72 of 77) 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

CITATION AND FINE 

tCitation Number Name, License No 
__i1 

42223 Entirely Pets..com DBA Pet Pharmacy Plus, Unlicensed 

Bus.& Prof. Code 4005; CCR, tItle 16, § 1775; Bus. & Prof. Code § 4301, subd. ) 
CODE 1 OFFENSE AMT OF FINE 

Bus. & Prof. Code § 4110 No person shall conduct a pharmacy in the $5,000.00 . (a)!Bus. & Prof. Code State of California unless he or she has 

§ 4112 subd. (a) & (b) obtained a license from the board/Nonresident 
pharmacy: Registration requiredlAll 

nonresident pharmacies shall register with the 

Bus. & Prof. Code § 4067 No person shall dispense or furnish, or cause $50,000.00 
subd. (a) to be furnished dangerous drugs.. .on the 

Internet. .without a prescription issued 
pursuant to_a_good_faith_examination 

CONDUCT: 

Unlicensed Activity: Business and Professions Code section 4110(a) said no person 
shall conduct a pharmacy in the state of California unless he or she has obtained a 
from the Board and Business and Professions Code section 4112(a) said any pharmacy 
located outside of this state that ships, mails, or delivers, in any manner, controlled 
substances, dangerous drugs, or dangerous devices into this state shall be considered a 
nonresident pharmacy and 4112(b) said all nonresident pharmacies shall register with the 
Board. EntirelyPets.com was not in compliance with the laws. Specifically, on 7/2912009 
and 7/30/2009 EntirelyPets.com located at 34501 Seventh Street in Union City., CA 94587, 
using Postal Mail Box #384 at 710 South 13th Street, Suite 900, in Norfolk, NE 68701 and 
a product return address 43450 Mintwood Street in Fremont, CA 94538 shipped RX 
6227029, Soloxine .1mg and RX 6227612, Soloxine .8mg, to a California customer, SA, 
using the pharmacy name Pet Pharmacy Plus, when neither EntirelyPets.com nor Pet 
Pharmacy Plus were licensed as a California pharmacy or a California nonresident 
pharmacy. This was a. violation of pharmacy law. 



(Page 73 of 77) 

CITATION AND FINE 
CI 2011 49563 



BOARD OF 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

CITATION AND FINE 

JURISDICTiON: Bus. & Prof. Code § 4005; CCR, title 16, § 1775; Bus. & Prof.. Code § 4314, subd. (1), 148 

VIOLATION CODE SECTION OFFENSE AMOUNT OF FINE 

Bus. & Prof. Code § 4043 Wholesaler means and includes every $5,000.00 
subd 'Bus. & Prof. Code § person who acts as a wholesale 

4160 subd. (a) merchant, broker, jobber, customs 
broker, reverse distributor, or agent who 

. sells, negotiates for distribution or takes • 

: possession of 

CONDUCT: 

Unlicensed . Business and Professions Code section 4043(a) defines a wholesaler 
to include a person who acts as a wholesale merchant, broker, jobber, customs broker, 
reverse distributor, agent, or a nonresident wholesaler, who sells for resale, or negotiates for 
distribution, or takes possession of, any drug or device included in section 4022 and Business 
and Professions Code section 4160(a) states a person may not act as a wholesaler of any 
dangerous drug unless licensed by the Board. Healthy Pets inc. was non-compliant. 
Specifically, from on or about 2/24/10 to on or about 3/4/10, Healthy Pets Inc., an unlicensed 
wholesaler located at 43500 Mintwood St., Fremont, CA 94538, sold dangerous drugs to Pet 
Meds N More, Inc., located in Los Angeles, CA without first obtaining a license from the Board. 
This was a violation of pharmacy law. 

(Pago 74 of 77) 

Citation Number Name, License No. 
Cl 2011 49563 Healthy Pets Inc., Unlicensed 



(rage 75 of 77) 

1:1 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

CITATION AND FINE 

Citation Number Name, License No. 
49569 Entirelypets.com, Unlicensed 

JURISDICTION: Bus. & Prof. Code § 4005; CCR, title 16, § 1775; Bus. & Prof. Code § 4314, subd. (1), 148 

VIOLATION CODE SECTION OFFENSE AMOUNT OF FINE 

Bus. & Prof. Code § 4161 Nonresident Wholesaler $5,000.00 
subd. (a) & (b) RequirementslLleenso required 

CONDUCT: 

Unlicensed Nonresident . Business and Professions Code section 4161(a) states a 
person located outside of this state that (1) ships, sells, mails, or delivers dangerous drugs into 
this state or (2) sells, brokers, or distributes dangerous drugs within this state shall be 
considered a nonresident wholesaler and Business and Professions Code 4161 (b) states a 
nonresident wholesaler shall be licensed by the Board prior to shipping, selling, mailing, or 
delivering dangerous drugs to a site located in this state or selling, brokering, or distributing 
dangerous drugs within this state. Entirelypets.com was non-compliant. Spectfically, from on 
or about 9/25109 to on or about 10/27/09, entirelypets.com, an unlicensed wholesaler located 
at 710 S. St. #900, PMB 384, Norfolk, NE 68701, sold dangerous drugs to Pet Meds N 
More, Inc., located in Los Angeles, CA without first obtaining a license from the Board. This 
was a violation of pharmacy law. 

EntlreIypets.ccni 9125/09 $2120.40 
Pet MedB N 

More, Inc. 
Pet Meds N 

More Inc. 
11901 Santa Monica Blvd.. 

#429, Los Angeles 

Entirelypets.com 1011 9/09 $3927.08 
Pet Mecis N 

More Inc. 
Pet Meds N 

More, Inc. 
11901 Senta Monica Blvd. 

#429, Los Angeles 

Entlrelypets.corn 10/27/09 $270530 
Pet Medsl'l 
More, Inc. 

Pet Meds N 
More, Inc. 

11901 Santa Monica Blvd. 
#429, Los Angeles 



(Page 40 of •77) 

California State Board of Pharmacy 
AND SERVICES AOEMCY 

1625 N. Masket Blvd. N219 Sacramento, CA 95834 
co.mUNER AWtI3RS 

E.9OV 

Wholesaler - Hypodermic 
INSPECTION REPORT 

Clinic - - Exempt Hospital 

lnspectOr -. 
PharmacY X Hospital Pharmacy 

Date 

- 

Addrms: . ..-- - 
- City 

- 

Permit #: PHYSOS32 

Date of Self Form: 

Hours M-F: -— 

PlC - 

RPH Cousultafli 

Staff RPB Name 
. Lleense# 

Zip: 94587. - 

pit Exp: 

/A 

DEA#: DEA Exp: . - 

. - 

Saturday 

. 

Hours Sunday: cLOSED 
Hours 

Athninistrator 

LAcensc#: 

•Td11t23637 

- -. 

Staff Name: .BAI 
DYM.. 

(IOR)2) 0832 Page 1 of 3 2 N.A 



(Page 41 of 77) 

• California State Board of Pharmacy 
'1625 P1. Maftet Blyd, S¾áIe 4219 Sacramento, CA 96834 AffAIRS 

(p16) 5747900 ion anuwes o. anowia a 
Fax (916)574.8618 

INSPECTION REPORT 

inspector Remarks: 
New phathacy-inspection. This is a closed-door, mail-order pharmacy that will be servicing animals only. Cunently do not plan to do 
any cosnpoudning at this point in thee. 

Compoending - Mark an X in the parentheses of each that applies: 
(x)No; OYes; InCA ()OutofState 

QPer Rx QFor PHY Future dispensing 0 Doctor adrnmnisuation Le. for MD offcie use Q Doctor dispensing 

o Sterile to Sterile Jnj. QNonsterile to sterile lnj. 

Nonsierile products 

o TabsiCaps/Supp/liquids; ()Cream/Ointment5/Lotions; ()Other 

Sterile products 
o Eye drops/Ear drops; Q Inhalation products 

Pharmacy dispensing (rxs/month): 
(x)<25; ()25to50; ()5OtolOO; 0>100 

For Doctor Office Use (unit/month): 
025to50; OSOtolOO; 0>100 

n reviewed: 
ne following were reviewed: NTC (provided new NTC to Owner Ghnmann), WC water, pharmacy security, purchase inventoiy from 

MW) veterinary Supply Inc. and Animal Nealth International, both companies will also serve as the reverse distributors. 

QAformed errors: 
for med errors not yet in place; mviewed requirements with Owner Ohumann 

Patient Centered Services: 
R.eviewed labeling and interpretive services requirements with Owner Ghumann 

CURES: no controlled substance dispensing will be done per Owner Gbnniann 

The foRowingwere.discussed: (delete if not appliceble) lC should complete the Pharmacy SeLf3.ssessment 30 days 
with Owner , alit P&Ps thar PlC Shingari will need to draft and keep a record of in the pharamcy. 

lAceasee Remarks: 

171-3 (1on2) 0832 Pa9e 2 ot 3 2 MA 



(Page 42 of 77) 

California State Board of Phannacy 
. 

1625 N. Mailcet Blvd. Suite N219 Sacranientø, CA 95834 
Phone (P18) 574-7900 • • 0. JR Fax (916) 5748618 

INSPECTION REPORT 
. 

I have d ussed,widerstand and received a copy of this form. Pharmacist (sign)___________________ 

-i Pharmacist (print)________________ 

Inspector (sign)____________________ 1? 

Inspector (print) Pr 

Additional information (for example - corrective plan of action, Quality Assurance outcomes, factors in mitigation, you want to 
submit for considerati on may be sent on the attached form to my attention at the above address no later than 14 calendar days from the 
date above. Please include a copy of this form with any information that you submiL 

Within 14 celendar days from the above date, please submit to me at the above address the following: 
Fax to Inspector Eleazu at 510-881-0647 Email to UEleadcaca.gov 

0m2) Pege3of 3 2NA 



(Page 5 of 77) 

State of California 
Secretary of State 

A $30.00 mull n. 
IMPORTANT - cong IMS 

PMUul 2. NAUE mLTEDUMiLSTY 

201124110110 

ENDORSED - FILED 
'n the office of the Secretary of State 

of the of Cahfonia 

SEP 2 1 201% 

2. ONLY YNE NENGCMAWONL IF 

A. U*I1UTY COWARY M! (IMP ThU WIE! WTh1M! 

LLC 

B. ThU 1111 U*&LtTY Y( 

ONE lR 
PLL LIMWY 

C. AMThONUITYO Or TM! 

4. If MY; 
MDNTh DAY YEAR 

a 

I 

I 

I Tfl _ flC III W• TO 
1 1 

MAIM 
Law PC 

1717 
Palo Alto. CA 
94303 

L i 
—. 

UMITED UABILITY COMPANY 
CER11FICATE OF AMENDMENT 

0. TO IN Till MAY03 lET FORTh l MPMATU PAlES ND AIM UWI 
A PIMT Or Ill CulTIFIOATh. OTIME MAY INCLUDE A R4103! (N ThU LA1UT MATE ON 10$ ThU UWTU 

TO OR ANY CRAIIOE If TEIVIMT*ThATWU.C*UU lWEOtllCUJflOIS. 



(Page 6 of 77) 

I 

ofiQinal mmvtd In Ut. 
Cat WIVTII5 

OCT 1 0 2011 

BOWEP4 



(Page 7 of 77) 

LL.C.1 

State of California 
Secretary of State 

Limited Liability Company 
Articles of Organization 

A $70.00 filing fee must accompany this form. 
ltant - Reid Instructions before completing form. 

I. NAME OF UVJTED LIASILITY COMPANY 

Healthy Pets Pharmacy. LLC 

Purpose (The Melenieni Is Sy gite nol be ollered.) 

2 THE PURPOSE OF THE UMIIED LIABILITY IS TO ENGASE IN ANY A UPBILJTY 
COMPANY MAY BE ORGANIZED UNDER THE B! LIMITED URBILnY COMPANY ACT. 

Inidal Agent fur SaMc. of Process (if me en tile ogeni res!de bi end bell ilems 3wm 4 must be It 
the 5eni Is u ccmo:et)ofl. me must an Ow Catitomla Seaetery of Slate a pweusnt to Cantomla CCzpoiatbne Cede 
1505 end Item 3 nnnt be ccinptatad (teem I*atn '.en* 
3 HAStE OF l. FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 

Roger Royse 

4. (FM INDIViDUAL. ADDRESS OFINITIAI. AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS III CAUFOattIA CiTY STAT! ZIP CODE 

1717 Embarcadero Road Palo Alto CA 94303 

Management (Chect onty one) 

5. ThE LIMITED UAB*LITY COMPANY WILL BE MANAGED BY: 

12] ONE MANAGER 

3 MORE ThAN ONE MANAGER 

ci AU. UNITED UABIUTV COMPANY 

Additional information 

S. ADDmONAL INFORMATION SET FORTH ON THE A1TACHED PAGES. IS INCORPORATED HEREIN BY This REFERENCE AND MADE A PART 
OF THIS CERTIFICATE. 

Execution 

1. (DECLARE I AM THE PERSON WHO EXECUTED THIS WHICH EXECUTiON IS ACT AND DEED. 

August 29,2011 

Roger Royse 
TYPE OR PRINT NAME OF ORGANIZER 

.C-T ) APPROVED BY SECRETARY QE STATE 

20112411011 0 

- FILED 
beths offce ut the 

of of Cafifotni 

AUG 2 9 2011 

The Space For FSIog UBe Olfy 

Entity Name (End tire nana c4th Ow LIITlEad UabThy Ccnlpany. or (lIe aVDmvIaIions ,.1C OYLL.C. Tile 'Ureter atw IY ? 
be abbreviated (0 'LW • and ' 



(Page 8 of 77> 

I heieby ceivly fliatup 

AUG 2 9 2011 

Date:_________________ 

DEBRA State 



(Page 9 of 77) 

• OPERATING AGREEMENT 
• OF 

ENTIRELYPETS PHARMACY, LLC 

AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made and entered into as of 
October 2011, between and among the Manager(s), and the Persons who sign a counterpart 
to this Agreement (collectively, the "Members") for the purpose of providing for the 
organization and operation of EntirelyPets Pharmacy, LLC, a California limited liability 
company (the "Company") 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth 
herein, and with the intent of being legally bound, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINED TERMS 

The following capitalized terms shall have the respective meanings specified in this 
Article I. Capitalized terms not defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning specified in 
the Act. " means the Beverly-Killea Limited Liability Company Act, as amended from tune 
to time, or any corresponding provision or provisions of any succeeding or successor law of the 
state of California. 

Adjusted Capital Account " means, with respect to any Interest Holder, the deficit 
balance, if any, in such Interest Holder's Capital Account as of the end of the relevant Fiscal 
Year, after giving effect to the following adjustments: 

(i) Credit to such Capital Account any amounts which such Interest Holder is 
obligated to restore pursuant to any provision of this Agreement or is deemed obligated to restore 
pursuant to the penultimate sentences of Regulations Sections 1 .704-2(g)(l) and l.704-2(iX5); 
and 

(ii) Debit to such Capital Account the items described in 
Regulations Sections 1.704-1 (bX2)(iiXdX4), 1.704-1 (b)(2XiiXd)(5), and 1.704-1 (bX2XiiXdX6). 

The foregoing definition of "Adjusted Capital Account Deficit" is intended to comply 
with the provisions of Regulations Section I.704-l(bX2XII)(d) and shall be interpreted 
consistently therewith. " shall mean, for any Person, (a) any Person directly or indirectly controlling, 
controlled by or under common control with the Person, (b) any other Person owning or 
controlling 25% or more of the outstanding voting securities of the Person, (c) any officer, 
director, or member of the Person, or (d) if the person is an officer, director, or manager, any 
company for which the Person acts in any similar capacity. 



(Page 10 of 77) 

means this Operating Agreement, as amended from time to time. " means a Person who has acquired an Economic Interest in the Company but 
is not a Member. 

Capital " means the account to be maintained by the Company for each Interest 
Holder in accordance with the following provisions: 

(i) an Interest Holder's Capital Account shall be credited with the amount of 
money and the fair market value (as determined by the Manager(s) and the contributing Interest 
Holder) of any property contributed to the Company (net of liabilities secured by such properly 
that the company either assumes or to which such property is subject), the amount of any 
Company unsecured liabilities assumed by the Interest Holder, and the Interest Holder's 
distributive share of Profit and (to the extent required by the Regulations) any item in the nature 
of income or gain specially allocated to the Interest Holder pursuant to the provisions of Section 
4.3; and 

(ii) an Interest Holder's Capital Account shall be debited with the amount of 
money and the fair market value (as determined by the Manager(s) in his, her or their sole 
discretion) of any Company property distributed to the Interest Holder (net of liabilities secured 
by such distributedproperty that the Interest Holder either assumes or to which such property is 
subject), the amount of any unsecured liabilities of the Interest Holder assumed by the Company, 
and the Interest Holder's distributive share of Loss and (to the extent required by the 
Regulations) any item in the nature of expenses or losses specially allocated to the Interest 
Holder pursuant to the provisions of Section 4.3. 

If any Interest is transferred pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the transferee shall 
succeed to the Capital Account of the transferor to the extent the Capital Account is attributable 
to the transferred Interest. It is intended that the Capital Accounts of all Interest Holders shall be 
maintained in compliance with the provisions of Regulation Section 1.704-1(b), and all 
provisions of this Agreement relating to the maintenance of Capital Accounts shall be interpreted 
and applied in a manner consistent with that Regulation. 

Capital " means the gross receipts received by the Company from any 
transaction not in the ordinary course of business which results in the receipt of cash 
or other consideration other than Contributions, including, without limitation, proceeds of sales, 
exchanges, or other dispositions of property not in the ordinary course of business, financings, 
refinancings, condemnations, recoveries of damage awards, and insurance proceeds. 

Cash Available for " means all cash of the Company available after paying 
all ordinary and necessary expenses and expenditures of the Company, and after establishing 
reserves to meet current or reasonably expected obligations of the Company, other than Capital 
Proceeds. 

Certificate of " means such certificate as is required to be filed with the 
Secretary of State in order to dissolve the Company. 

2 



(Page 11 of 77) 

" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any corresponding 
provision of any succeeding revenue law. 

"Company"means EntirelyPets Pharmacy, LLC, a California limited liability company. 

Company " moans 34501 Seventh Street, Union City, CA 94587, or such other 
address as may be designated by the Manager(s) from time to time. " means the total amount of cash and the fair market value of any other 
assets contributed or deemed contributed to the Company by an Interest Holder in accordance 
with the Code, net of liabilities assumed or to which the assets are subject. " means a payment to an Interest Holder in its capacity as an Interest 
Holder. 

Economic " means a Person's right to share in the income, gains, losses, 
deductions, credit, or similar items of, or to receive Distributions from, the Company, but does 
not include any other rights of a Member including, without limitation, the right to vote or to 
participate in management, or any right to information concerning the business and affairs of the 
Company. 

Fiscal " means the Company's taxable year, which shall be selected by the 
Manager(s), subject to the requirements and limitations of the Code. " means a Member's rights in the Company, collectively, including the 
Member's Economic Interest, any right to vote or participate in management, and any right to 
information concerning the business and affairs of the Company. 

Interest " means any Person who holds an Economic Interest, whether as a 
Member or as anAssignee of a Member. An Assignee of a Member shall have only the 
Economic Interest with respect to the Units acquired from the Member, and shall acquire such 
Units subject to all the terms, conditions and restrictions of this Agreement that are applicable to 
the transferring Member, including the restrictions set forth in Section 7.4 and the contribution 
obligations under Section 4.1.3 to the extent that they relate to the Economic Interest transferred. 

Involuntary " shall mean, with respect to any Interest Holder, the occurrence 
of any of the following events: 

(i) the Interest Holder makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; 

(ii) the Interest Holder files a voluntary petition of bankruptcy; 

(iii) the Interest Holder is adjudged bankrupt or insolvent or there is entered 
against the Interest Holder an order for relief in any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding; 

3 



(Page 12 of 77) 

(iv) the Interest Holder files a petition or answer seeking for the Interest Holder any reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief under any statute, law, or regulation; 

(v) the Interest Holder seeks, consents to, or acquiesces in the appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator of the Interest Holder or of all or any substantial part of the Interest Holder's properties; ' if the Interest Holder is an individual, the Interest Holder's death or adjudication by a court of competent jurisdiction as incompetent to manage the Interest Holder's person or property; 

(vii) if the Interest Holder is acting as an Interest Holder by virtue of being a trustee of a trust, the termination of the trust; 

(viii) if the Interest Holder is a partnership or another limited liability company, 
the dissolution and commencement of winding up of the partnership or limited liability 
company; 

(ix) if the Interest Holder is a corporation, the dissolution of the corporation or the revocation of its charter, or 

(x) if the Interest Holder is an estate, the distribution by the fiduciary of the estate's entire interest in the Company. 

Majority " or Majority of the " means the vote or consent of the 
Members holding a majority of the issued and outstanding Units held by all Members. " means the Person(s) designated as such in this Agreement. " means each Person signing this Agreement and any Person who subsequently 
is admitted as a member of the Company in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

Member Nonrecourse " has the meaning set forth in Regulation Section 1.704- 
2(b)(4) with respect to "partner nonrecourse debt," substituting the word "member" for "partner" 
and "company" for "partnership" wherever they appear. 

Member Nonrecourse Debt Minimum " means an amount, with respect to each 
Member Nonrecourse Debt, equal to the Company Minimum Gain that would result if such 
Member Nonrecourse Debt were treated as a Nonrecourse Liability, determined in accordance 
with Regulation Section .-2(i)(3). 

Member Nonrecourse " has the meaning set forth in Regulation Sections 
l.704-2(i)(I) and I.704-2(i)(2) with respect to "partner nonrecourse deductions" substituting the 
word "member" for "partner" and "company" for "partnership" wherever they appear. 

4 



(Page 13 or 77) 

Minimum " has the meaning set forth in Regulation Section 1.704-2(d). Minimum 
Gain shall be computed separately for each Interest Holder in a manner consistent with the 
Regulations under Code Section 704(b). 

Negative Capital Account with a balance of less than zero. 

Nonrecourse " has the meaning set forth in Regulation Section 1.704-2(b)(1). 
The amount of Nonrecourse Deductions for a taxable year of the Company equals the net 
increase, if any, in the amount of Minimum Gain during that taxable year, determined according 
to the provisions of Regulation Section 1.704-2(c). 

Nonrecourse " has the meaning set forth in Regulation Section 1.704.2(b)(3). 

Organizing " means the Articles of Organization filed with the Secretary of 
State. " means, as to each Interest Holder, the ratio that the number of Units held by 
the Interest Holder bears to the number of all the issued and outstanding Units held by all Interest 
Holders. 

Permitted " shall mean a voluntary lifetime Transfer of an Interest by any 
individual Interest Holder to the following Permitted " (i) such Interest Holder's 
spouse, children or grandchildren, or any combination thereof (the "Family"), (ii) a trust for the 
benefit of such Interest Holder or his or her Family, or (iii) a limited partnership or limited 
liability company in which all the beneficial interests are owned by the Interest Holder and his or 
her Family, provided such Interest Holder is the trustee, general partner or manager of such 
transferee. No Transfer shall be deemed to be a Permitted Transfer unless and until all 
Conditions of Transfer specified in Section 6.1 have been satisfied. " means and includes an individual, corporation, partnership, association,, limited 
liability company, trust, estate, or other entity. 

Positive Canital Account with a balance greater than zero. 

Preferred " means the county of the Company Address. 

Profit" and " means, for each taxable year of the Company (or other period for 
which Profit or Loss must be computed), the net income and net loss, respectively, of the 
Company (determined by including all items that adjust Capital Accounts pursuant to Regulation 
Section 1.704-1 (bX2)(iv)) determined strictly in accordance with federal income tax principles 
(including rules governing depreciation and amortization), except that in computing net income 
or net loss, the book' value of an asset (determined in accordance with the principles of 
Regulation Section 1.704-1 (b)(2Xiv)) will be substituted for its adjusted tax basis if the two 
differ, and these items shall be excluded from the computation of: (i) any gain, income, 
deductions or losses specially allocated under the minimum gain chargeback, the partner 

5 



(Page 14 of 77) 

minimum gain chargeback, or the qualified income offset, (ii) any nonrecowse deductions, (iii) 
any partner nonrecourse deductions, and (iv) any specially allocated items under Section 4.3. " means the income tax regulations, including any temporary regulations, 
from time to time promulgated under the Code. 

Schedule of " means Exhibit A of this Agreement, which shall be maintained 
by the Manager(s) and updated from tune to time to reflect the admission of new Members. The 
Schedule of Members shall state each Member's name and address, Contribution, date of 
admission, number of Units, and any vesting terms. 

Secretary of State the State of Organization. 

State of " means California. 

Tax Matters " means Ritu Ghumman. 

Total Number of Authorized Units of the Company. 

Transfer means, when used as a noun, any sale, hypothecation, pledge, assignment, 
attachment, or other transfer, and, when used as a verb, to sell, hypothecate, pledge, assign, or 
otherwise transfer. " mean the Interests to be issued or granted by the Company in accordance with 
this Agreement. Units shall have the rights and be subject to the restrictions set forth in this 
Agreement. The Total Number of Authorized Units shall be authorized for issuance by the 
Manager(s). 

Voluntary " means an Interest Holder's dissociation with the Company by 
means other than by a Transfer in compliance with this Agreement or an Involuntary 
Withdrawal. 

ARTICLE H 
FORMATION AND NAME; OFFICE; PURPOSE; TERM 

2.1. . The parties have organized a limited liability company pursuant to 
the Act and the provisions of this Agreement and have caused the Organizing Documents to be 
prepared, executed, and filed with the Secretary of State. The Members hereby authorize and. 
ratify the filing of the Organizing Documents. 

2.2. Name of the . The name of the Company is EntirelyPets Pharmacy, 
LLC. The Company may do business under that name and under any other name or names upon 
which the Manager(s) select in his, her or their discretion. If the Company does business under a 
name other than that set forth in the Organizing Documents, then the Company shall file a 
fictitious name statement or any other documents as required by applicable law. 

6 



(Page 15 of 77) 

2.3. . The Company is formed for the object and purpose of, and the nature of 
the business to be conducted and promoted by the Company is, to engage in any lawful actor 
activity for which limited liability companies may be formed under the Act. 

2.4. . The term of the Company shall begin upon the acceptance of the 
Organizing Documents by the offIce of the Secretary of Slate and shall continue in existence 
until its existence is terminated pursuant to Article II of this Agreement. 

2.5. Principal Place of The Principal Place of Business shall be 
located at the Company Address, or at such other location as the Manager(s) may detennine from 
time to time. The Company may also have such offices, anywhere within or without the State of 
Organization, as the Manager(s) may determine from time to time. 

ARTICLE Ill 
MEMBERS; CAPITAL; CAPITAL ACCOUNTS 

3.1. . Promptly upon the execution of this Agreement, the Members, 
excluding any Members who have been or are granted Units as profits interests, shall contribute, 
or have contributed, as Contributions, cash and/or property set forth on Exhibit . and as set 
forth in any Contribution and Assignment Agreement entered into by and between the Company 
and such Member, if any, which Contribution and Assignment Agreement shall be attached to 
this Agreement. 

3.2. No Additional . An Interest Holder may not contribute additional 
capital to the Company unless the Interest Holder purchases additional Units, with the consent of 
the Manager(s). No Interest Holder shall have personal liability for any obligation of the 
Company except as expressly provided by law. In lieu of accepting additional contributions 
from the Interest Holders, the Manager(s), in his, her or their sole and absolute discretion, may 
cause the Company to borrow funds to satisfy its cash requirements. Any such borrowing may 
be made from any third party, or from any Interest Holder, subject to Section 3.6 below. 

3.3. No Interest on . Interest Holders shall not be paid interest on their 
Contributions or Capital Account balance. 

3.4. Return of . Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, no 
Interest Holder shall have the right to receive the return of any Contribution or withdraw from 
the Company. 

3.5. Capital A separate Capital Account shall be maintained for each 
Interest Holder. 

3.6. Loans and Other Business . Any Interest Holder may, at any time, 
make or cause a loan to be made to the Company in any amount and on those terms which have 
been approved or ratified by a Majority Vote. Interest Holders may, with the consent of a 
Majority of the Members, transact other business with the Company and, in doing so, they shall 
have the same rights and be subject to the same obligations arising out of any such business 

7 



(Page 16 of 77) 

transaction as would be enjoyed by and imposed upon any Person, not an Interest Holder, 
engaged in a similar business transaction with the Company. 

3.7. Matters Pertaining to Profits . The Manager(s) are hereby authorized and 
directed to elect the "safe harbor" valuation method embodied in Proposed Regulation Section 
1.83-3(1) (the "Safe Harbor"). The Company and each Member (including any Persons to whom an Interest is transferred in connection with the provision of services, and any Person to whom an Interest is transferred by another Member) agree to comply with all requirements of the Safe Harbor while such election remains in effect, including making tax filings (if any) consistent with the applicable requirements of such Safe Harbor and any relevant Regulations. By 
executing this Agreement, each Member expressly authorizes and directs the Manager(s) to take 
any and all action which is reasonably necessary under applicable federal income tax law (as such law may be revised from time to time) to cause the "liquidation value" methodology to apply to the valuation for federal income tax purposes of interests in the Company transferred in connection with the performance of services, and acknowledges and agrees that the provisions of this Section 3.7 are legally binding on such party, and that such provisions will survive such party ceasing to be a Member of the Company and/or the termination of the Company. 

ARTICLE IV 
PROFIT, LOSS, AND DISTRIBUTIONS 

4.1 

Distributions of Cash Available for . The Company shall 
distribute Cash Available for Distribution, at such times and in such amounts as shall be determined by the Manager(s), to the Interest Holders, pro rata in accordance with their 
Percentages. 

4.1.2. Distributions of Capital . The Company shall distribute Capital 
Proceeds, at such times and in such amounts as shall be determined by the Manager(s), in the 
following order and priority: 

(a) First, to the payment of all expenses of the Company incident to 
the Capital Transaction giving rise to such Capita] Proceeds; 

(b) Then, to the payment of debts and liabilities of the Company then 
due and outstanding (including all debts due to any Interest Holder); 

(C) Then, to the establishment of any reserves which the Manager(s) 
deem(s) necessary for liabilities or obligations of the Company; and 

(d) Then, to the Interest Holders in accordance with Section 4.1.1, as if 
the amounts so distributed were a distribution of Cash Available for Distribution. 

4.1.3. Tax Payment . Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 
4.1.1 and 4.1.2, unless the Manager(s) shall otherwise determine, the Company shall distribute 

8 



(Page 17 ot 77) 

annually to each Interest Holder, no later than ninety (90) days after the close of each calendar 
year, an amount of Cash Available for Distribution, if any, equal to the estimated tax liability, as 
determined by the Manager(s) in his, her or their sole discretion, resulting from the income of the 
Company allocable to that Interest Holder and treated as realized by that Interest Holder for U.S. 
tax purposes for that year. All sums distributed to an Interest Holder pursuant to this Section 
4.1.3 shall be credited against Distributions otherwise payable to such Interest Holder pursuant to 
Sections 4.1.1 and 4.1.2. If, following the dissolution, winding up and termination of the 
Company and the distribution of all or substantially all of the Company's assets pursuant to 
Section 4.4.2, (i) the aggregate amount received by any Interest Holder pursuant to this Section 
4.1.3 exceeds (ii) the aggregate amount to which such Interest Holder is entitled for all Fiscal 
Years pursuant to Section 4.1.1 and 4.1.2, then such Interest Holder shall contribute to the 
Company an amount equal to the excess of the amount set forth in clause (i) above over the 
amount set forth in clause (ii) above. 

4.2. Allocation of Profit and . The rules set forth below in this Section 4.2 shall 
apply for the purpose of determining each Interest Holder's allocable share of the items of 
income, gain, loss and expense of the Company comprising Profit or Loss of the Company for 
each Fiscal Year, determining special allocations of other items of income, gain, loss and 
expense, and adjusting the balance of each Interest Holder's Capital Account to reflect the 
aforementioned general and special allocations. 

4.2.1. In . As of the end of each Fiscal Year of the Company and after 
giving effect to the special allocations set forth in the other provisions of this Article IV, the 
income and gain of the Company for such Fiscal Year shall be allocated to the Capital Accounts 
of the Interest Holders in the amounts and proportions necessary to ensure that, to the extent 
feasible, the balance of each Interest Holder's Capital Account at the end of any taxable year 
would be equal to the amount of cash that the Interest Holder would receive pursuant to this 
Agreement (or would be negative in the amount of cash that such Interest Holder would be 
required to contribute to the Company pursuant to this Agreement) if the Company sold all of its 
property for an amount of cash equal to the book value (as determined pursuant to Regulations 
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)) of such property, and all of the cash of the Company remaining after 
payment of all liabilities of the Company were distributed immediately following the end of such 
taxable year pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.2.2. . The Manager(s) may adjust such allocations for U.S. 
federal, state and local income tax purposes as may be necessary or desirable to maintain 
substantial economic effect, or to ensure that such allocations are in accordance with the interests 
of the Interest Holders in the Company, in each case within the meaning of the Code and 
Regulations. 

4.2.3. Loss Limitation: Loss . Loss and expense of the Company shall 
be allocated to the Interest Holders pro rate in accordance with Positive Capital Account 
balances, until such balances are reduced to zero and thereafter in accordance with Percentages. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 4.2, the amount of items of Company 
expense and loss allocated pursuant to this Section 4.2 to any Interest Holder shall not exceed the 
maximum amount of such items that can be so allocated without causing such Interest Holder to 

9 



(Page 18 of 77) 

have an Adjusted Capital Account Deficit at the end of any Fiscal Ycat All such items in excess 
of the limitation set forth in this Section 4.2.3 shall be allocated first to Interest Holders who 
would not have an Adjusted Capital Account Deficit, pro rats in proportion to their Capital 
Account balances as adjusted in accordance with subdivisions (i) and (ii) of the definition of 
Adjusted Capital Account Deficit, until no Interest Holder would be entitled to any further 
allocation, and thereafter to all Interest Holders in accordance with their Percentages. 

4.2.4. Transfers of Economic . A Person who succeeds to an Interest 
Holder's Economic Interest shall be allocated the Profit or Loss with respect to the interest 
transferred. For any Fiscal Year during which any part of an Interest is Transferred between 
Interest Holders or to another Person, the portion of the Profit, Loss and other items of income, 
gain, loss, deduction and credit that are allocable with respect to such part of an Economic 
Interest shall be apportioned between the transferor and the transferee under any method allowed 
pursuant to Section 706 of the Code and the applicable Regulations as determined by the 
Manager(s). 

4.2.5. Adjustments to Capital . In the event of: (i) the acquisition of an 
additional Interest by any Interest Holder in exchange for more than a de minimis contribution, 
(ii) the Distribution by the Company to an Interest Holder of more than a de minimis amount of 
property as consideration for an Interest; (iii) the liquidation of the Company within the meaning 
of Regulations Section 1.704-1 (bX2XiiXg); or (iv) the issuance of an Interest for services under 
Regulations Section l.704-1(b)(2)(ivXf)(5)(iij); the Capital Accounts of the Interest Holders 
shall first be adjusted to reflect the manner in which the unrealized income, gain, loss and 
deduction inherent in all of the Company's property (that has not been reflected in the Capital 
Account previously) would be allocated among the Interest Holders pursuant to Section 4.2 if 
there were a taxable disposition of such property at fair market value; provided, that the 
Manager(s) reasonably determine(s) that such adjustments are necessaiy or appropriate to reflect 
the relative economic interests of the Interest Holders. 

4.3. Regulatory . 
4.3.1. Impermissible Deficits and Oualified Income . No Interest Holder 

shall be allocated Losses or deductions if the allocation causes the Interest Holder to have a 
Negative Capital Account, as adjusted as provided in Sections 1.704-1(bX2)(ii), 1.704-2(g), and 
l.704-2(iX5) of the Regulations; instead, such items shall be allocated to the other Interest 
Holders in proportion to their Percentages. If an Interest Holder for any reason (whether or not 
expected) receives (1) an allocation of Loss or deduction (or item thereof) or (2) any Distribution 
(or reasonably expected Distribution), which causes the Interest Holder to have an Adjusted 

Account Deficit at the end of any taxable year, then all items of income and gain of the 
Company (consisting of a pro rata portion of each item of Company income, including gross 
income and gain) for that taxable year shall be allocated to that Interest Holder, before any other 
allocation is made of Company items for that taxable year, in the amount and in proportions 
required to eliminate the excess as quickly as possible. This Section 4.3.1 is intended to comply 
with, and shall be interpreted consistently with, the "alternate test for economic effect" and 
"qualified income offset" provisions of the Regulations promulgated under Code Section 704(b). 

10 



(Fage 19 of 77> 

4.3.2. Income Tax . The Interest Holders are aware of the income tax 
consequences of this Article IV and agree to be bound by these provisions in reporting their 
shares of Profit, Losses, and other items for federal and state income tax purposes. The Interest 
Holders acknowledge that if an Interest Holder makes a loan to the Company, or bears the risk of loss with respect to a Company this Agreement must be amended to comply with 
applicable Regulations relating to the special allocation of Member Nonrecourse Deductions. 

4.3.3. Guaranteed . Any compensation which the Company pays to an Interest Holder for services rendered to the Company may be treated as a guaranteed payment 
under Code Section 707(c). To the extent any compensation paid to any Interest Holder by the 
Company, is determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a guaranteed payment under 
Code Section 707(c) or is not paid to the Interest Holder other than in the Person's capacity as an 
Interest Holder within the meaning of Code Section 707(a), the Interest Holder shall be specially 
allocated gross income of the Company in an amount equal to the amount of that compensation, 
and the Interest Holder's Capital Account shall be adjusted to reflect the payment of that 
compensation. 

4.3.4. Contributed Property and . In accordance with Code Section 704(c) and the Regulations thereunder, including Regulation Section 1 .704-l(bX2)(iv)(dX3), income, gain, loss, and deduction with respect to any property contributed (or deemed 
contributed) to the Company shall, solely for tax purposes, be allocated among the Interest 
Holders so as to take account çf any variation between the adjusted basis of the property to the 
Company for federal income tax purposes and its fair market value at the date of contribution (or deemed contribution). If the,adjusted book value of any Company asset is adjusted under 
Regulation Section l.704-l(bX2)(jvXf), subsequent allocations of income, gain, loss, and 
deduction with respect to the asset shall take into account any variation between the adjusted 
basis of the asset for federal income tax purposes and its adjusted book value in the manner 
required under Code Section 704(c) and the Regulations thereunder. The parties hereto agree to 
use any method described in Regulation Section 1.704-3 for making Code Section 704(c) 
allocations as the Manager(s) may determine in his, her or their discretion. 

4.3.5. Code Section 754 . To the extent an adjustment to the tax 
basis of any Company Asset pursuant to Code Section 734(b) or Code Section 743(b) is required, 
pursuant to Regulation Section l.704-l(bX2Xiv)(m), to be taken into account in determining 
Capital Accounts, the amount of the adjustment to the Capital Accounts shall be treated as an 
item of gain (if the adjustment increases the basis of the asset) or loss (if the adjustment 
decreases basis), and the gain or loss shall be specially allocated to the Interest Holders in a 
manner consistent with the manner in which their Capital Accounts are required to be adjusted 
pursuant to that Section of the Regulations. 

4.3.6. Minimum Gain . In order to comply with the "minimum gain 
chargeback" requirements of Regulation Sections l.704-2(f)(1) and l.704-2(iX4), and 
notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in the event there is a net 
decrease in an Interest Holder's share of Minimum Gain and/or Member Nonrecourse Debt 
Minimum Gain during the Company's taxable year, such Interest Holder shall be allocated items 
of income and gain for that year (and if necessary, other years) as required by and in accordance 

11 



(Page 20 of 77) 

with Regulation Sections l.704-2(f)(I) and 1.704-2(i)(4) before any other allocation is made. It 
is the intent of the parties hereto that any allocation pursuant to this Section 4.3.6 shall constitute 
a "minimum gain chargeback" under Regulation Section -2(f) and I .704-2(i)(4). 

4.3.7. Nonrecourse . Solely for purposes of determining an Interest 
Holder's proportionate share of "excess nonrecourse liabilities" of the Company within the 
meaning of Regulation Section 1 -3(aX3), the Interest Holders' interest in Company profits 
shall be based on their respective Percentages. 

4.3.8. . The Profit and Loss allocation provisions of this Agreement 
shall be fairly interpreted to effect the intent of this Agreement and in the event of an ambiguity 
or dispute in the application of any provision hereof, the Interest Holders agree that the matter 
shall be submitted to the Company's accountant, whose determination on such matter shall be 
final. In the event that the Company's accountant is unable or unwilling to resolve the matter, 
the dispute shall be resolved under Section 9.11 below. 

4.4. Liquidation and . 
4.4.1. After taking into account all Capital Account adjustments (including those 

set forth in Section 4.2.5) of the Company for the taxable year during which the liquidation 
occurs, upon liquidation of the Company, the assets of the Company shall be distributed to the 
Interest Holders as follows: 

(a) First, to the payment of all expenses of the Company incident to 
the liquidation; 

(b) Then, to the payment of debts and liabilities of the Company then 
due and outstanding (including all debts due to any Interest Holder); 

(c) Then, to the establishment of any reserves which the Manager(s) 
deem necessary for liabilities or obligations of the Company; 

(d) Then, to the Interest Holders in accordance with Positive Capital 
Account Balances until such balances are reduced to zero; and 

(c) Then, to the Interest Holders in accordance with Section 4.1.1, as if 
the amounts so distributed were a distribution of Cash Available for Distribution. 

4.4.2. Subject to Section 4.1.3, no Interest Holder shall be obligated to restore a 
Negative Capital Account. 

4.4.3. The tax allocation provisions of this Agreement are intended to produce 
final Capital Account balances of the Interest Holders that will permit liquidating Distributions 
that are made under Section 4.4.1 to be equal to the Distributions that would occur if such 
Distributions were made to the Interest Holders in proportion to positive Capital Account 
balances, after giving effect to all Contributions, Distributions, and allocations for all periods, in 

12 



(Page 21 of 77) 

accordance with Regulation Section 1.704-I(b)(2Xii)(bX2). To the extent that the tax allocation 
provisions of this Agreement would not produce such final Capital Account balances, (1) such 
provisions shall be amended by the Manager(s) if and to the extent necessary to produce such 
result and (2) taxable income or taxable loss of the Company for prior open years (or items of 
gross income and deduction of the Company) shall be reallocated among the Interest Holders to 
the extent it is not possible to achieve such result with allocations of income (including gross 
income) and loss (or items of deduction for the cunent year and future years. This Section 4.4.3 
shall control notwithstanding any reallocation or adjustment of taxable income, taxable loss, or 
items thereof by the Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority. 

4.5. . 
4.5.1. If any assets of the Company are distributed in kind to the Interest 

Holders, those assets shall be valued on the basis of their fair market value, as determined in 
good faith by the Manager(s) in his, her or their sole discretion. The Profit or Loss for each 
unsold asset shall be determined as if the asset had been sold at its fair market value, and the 
Profit or Loss shall be allocated as provided in Section 4.2 and shall be properly credited or 
charged to the Capital Accounts of the Interest Holders prior to the Distribution of the assets in 
liquidation pursuant to Section 4.4. 

4.5.2. All Profit and Loss shall be allocated and all Distributions shall be made 
to the Persons shown on the records of the Company to have been Interest Holders as of the last 
day of the taxable year for which the allocation or Distribution is to be made, subject to Section 
4.2.4 above. 

4.5.3. For purposes of determining the Profits, Losses, or any other items 
allocable to any period, Profits, Losses, and any such other items shall be detemiined on a daily, 
monthly, or other basis, as determined by the Manager(s) using any permissible method under 
Code Section 706 and the Regulations thereunder. 

4.5.4. The Manager(s) are hereby authorized, upon the advice of the Company's 
tax counsel, to amend this Article N to comply with the Code and the Regulations promulgated 
under Code Section 704(b); provided, however, that no amendment shall materially affect 
Distributions to an Interest Holder without the Interest Holder's prior written consent. 

ARTICLE V 
MANAGEMENT: RIGHTS, POWERS, AND DUTIES 

5.1.1. . The Company shall be managed by one or more Managers, each of 
whom may, but need not be a Member. Ritu Ghumrnan shall serve as the initial Manager(s) until 
his, her or their death, incapacity, disability, resignation or removal in accordance with the terms 
of this Agreement. 

5.1.2. General . A Manager does not have the authority to act without the 
approval of all Manager(s). The Manager(s) may exercise his, her or their discretion, power, or 
authority to act under this Agreement, subject in all cases to the other provisions of this 

13 



(Page 22 of 77) 

Agreement and the requirements of applicable law, to , control, administer, and operate 
the business and affairs of the Company for the purposes herein stated, and to make all decisions 
affecting such business and affairs, including without limitation, for Company purposes, the 
power to: 

- (a) Enter into agreements and contracts in connection with the 
Company's business; 

(b) Execute any and all other instruments and documents which may 
be necessary or in the opinion of the Manager(s) desirable to carry out the intent and purpose of 
this Agreement; 

(c) Make any and all expenditures which the Manager(s), in his, her or 
their discretion, deem(s) necessary or appropriate in connection with the management of the 
affairs of the Company and the carrying out of the obligations and responsibilities under this 

including, without limitation, all legal, accounting, and other related expenses 
incurred in connection with the organization, financing, and operation of the Company; 

(d) Enter into any kind of activity necessary to, in connection with, or 
incidental to, the accomplishment of the purposes of the Company; 

(e) Engage in business in any jurisdiction which does not provide for 
the registration of limited liability companies; 

(f) Elect to continue the Company following the withdrawal of an 
Interest Holder; 

(g) Reserved]. 

(h) Admit a Member to the Company; 

(i) Borrow money and incur debts on behalf of the Company; 

(j) Approve a Transfer pursuant to Section VI herein; 

(k) Accept or assign an Offer pursuant to Section 6.1.3; 

(1) Accept a Withdrawal Offer pursuant to Section 6.3; or 

(m) Amend the Total Number of Authorized Units. 

5.1.3. Actions Requiring Majority . Notwithstanding Section 5.1.2. above, 
without the approval of a Majority Vote, the Manager(s) shall not: 

(a) Declare bankruptcy, dissolve, voluntarily liquidate or wind up the 
Company's operations; 

14 



(Page 23 of 77) 

I 

(b) Sell all or substantially all of the Company's assets or property; 

(c) Merge with or into another Person; 

(d) Unless otherwise provided herein, amend this Agreement pursuant 
to Section 9.12. 

5.1.4. Limitation on Authority of Interest 

Holder is an agent of the Company solely by virtue of 
being an Interest Holder, and no Interest Holder has authority to act for the Company solely by 
virtue of being an Interest Holder. 

(b) This Section 5.1 supersedes any authority granted to the Interest 
Holders pursuant to the Act. Any Interest Holder who takes any action or binds the Company in 
violation of this Section 5.1 shall be solely responsible for any loss and expense incurred by the 
Company as a result of the unauthorized action and shall indemnify and hold the Company 
harmless with respect to the loss or expense. 

5.1.5. Removal of Manager may be removed for Cause by a 
disinterested Majority Vote. "Cause" shall mean the commission of a felony involving 
dishonesty, or gross negligence or willful misconduct having a material adverse effect on the 
Company. Should a Manager be removed who is also an Interest Holder, such removal shall not 
affect the person's rights as an Interest Holder. 

5.1.6. Resignation of Manager may resign from his position as a 
Manager at any time by written notice to the Members. Such resignation shall become effective 
when such notice is received, unless a later effective date is specified in such notice. 

5.1.7. Replacement of Manager either is removed, resigns, dies 
or becomes incapacitated or disabled, in accordance with the terms of this Article V, the 
Members may appoint a replacement Manager by a Majority Vote. 

5.2. Meetings of and Voting by 

Members of the 
Members may be called at any time by the Manager(s) or by those Members holding at least a 
majority of the Percentages then held by Members. Meetings of Members shall be held at the 
Company's principal place of business or at any other place designated by the Person calling the 
meeting. Not less than ten (10) nor more than ninety (90)'days before each meeting, the Person 
calling the meeting shall give written notice of the meeting to each Member entitled to vote at 
the meeting. The notice shall state the time, place, and purpose of the meeting. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing provisions, each Member who is entitled to notice waives notice if before or after 
the meeting, the Member signs a waiver of the notice which is filed with the records of Members' 
meetings, or if such Member is present at the meeting in person or by proxy. Unless this 

15 



(Page 24 of 77) 

Agreement provides otherwise, at a meeting of Members, the presence in person or by proxy of 
Members holding not less than a majority of the Percentages then held by Members constitutes a 
quorum. A Member may vote either in person or by written proxy signed by the Member or by 
his or her duly authorized attorney in fact 

5.2.2. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, whenever this Agreement 
requires the approval of the Members, the affirmative vote of Members holding a majority or 
more of the Percentages then held by Members shall be required to approve the matter. 

5.2.3. In lieu of holding a meeting, the Members may vote or otherwise take 
action by a written instrument indicating the consent of Members holding the Percentage 
required to approve such action, as determined under this Agreement. 

5.3. Personal . 
5.3.1. No Member shall be required to perform services for the Company solely 

by virtue of being a Member. Unless approved by the Manager, no Interest Holder shall perform 
services for the Company or be entitled to compensation for services performed for the 
Company. 

5.3.2. The Manager(s) shall be entitled to reimbursement for expenses 
reasonably incurred in connection with the activities of the Company. 

5.4. Duties of . 
5.4.1. The Manager(s) shall devote such time to the business and affairs of the 

Company as is necessary to carry out his, her or their duties set forth in this Agreement. At the 
discretion of the Manager(s) and until such time as may be required, the Interest Holders shall 
not be required to devote such time to the business and affairs of the Company. 

5.4.2. Each Interest Holder understands and acknowledges that the conduct of 
the Company's business may involve business dealings and undertakings with other Interest 
Holders. In any of those cases, those dealings and undertakings shall be at arm's length and on 
commercially reasonable terms as determined by the Manager(s). 

5.5. . 
5.5.1. The Manager(s) may appoint officers (each an "Officer") from time to 

time. The same person may hold any two or more of such offices. 

5.5.2. The term of office and salary of each Officer and the manner and time of 
the payment of such salaries shall be fixed and determined by the Manager(s) and may be altered 
by the Manager(s) from time to time at the pleasure of the Manager(s), subject to the rights, if 
any, of such Officers under any written contract of employment signed on behalf of the 
Company by an authorized person other than the employee under the Agreement 

16 



(Page 25 of 77) 

5.5.3. Subject to any agreement between the Company and an Officer to the 
contrary, any Officer may be removed at the pleasure of the Manager(s) or at the pleasure of any 
other Officer who may be granted such power by the Manager. Any Officer may resign at any 
time upon written notice to the Company without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the Company 
under any contract to which the Officer is a party. 

5.5.4. The Officers shall have only such authority as is expressly granted in 
writing by the Manager(s). 

5.6. Liability and . 
5.6.1 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, whether express 

or implied, neither the Manager(s), any Affiliate of the Manager(s) nor any officer, director, 
manager, shareholder, member, partner, employee, agent or representative of an Affiliate (each a 
"Related Person"), shall be liable to the Company or any Interest Holder or any agent or Affiliate 
of any Interest Holder for any act or omission taken or omitted in good faith by the Manager(s) 
or such Related Person, unless and then only to the extent that such act or omission constituted 
fraud, gross negligence or willful and material breach of this Agreement. To the extent 
permitted by applicable law, the Company and the Interest Holders waive any and all rights any 
of them may have to recover punitive damages from the Company, the Manager(s), and all 
Related Persons. To the extent that, at law or in equity, the Manager(s) or any Related Person 
has duties (including fiduciary duties) and liabilities relating thereto to the Company or to an 
Interest Holder, the Manager(s) acting under this Agreement and any Related Person acting in 
connection with the Company's business or affairs shall not be liable to the Company or to any 
such Interest Holder for his, her or their good faith reliance on the provisions of this Agreement. 
The provisions of this Agreement, to the extent that they restrict the duties and liabilities of the 
Manager(s) otherwise existing at law or in equity, are agreed by the Interest Holders to replace 
such other duties and liabilities of the Manager(s). 

5.6.2. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Company shall indemnify the 
Manager(s) and Related Persons (each, an "Indemnitee") against any loss, liability, damage, 
settlement, cost, or other expense, including reasonable attorneys' fees in connection therewith 
(each a "Loss"), to which any such Indemnitee may directly or indirectly become subject by 
reason of any acts or omissions or any alleged acts or omissions arising out of such Indeinnitee's 
or any other Indemnitee's activities in connection with the Company; provided, that an 
Indemniteeshall be entitled to indemnification hereunder only to the extent that such Indemnitee 
(I) acted in good faith in what such Person believed to be the best interests of the Company and 
(ii) was neither grossly negligent nor engaged in willful misconduct. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, the Company may, in the sole discretion of the Manager(s), pay the expenses 
incurred by any Indemnitee in connection with any proceeding in advance of the final disposition 
of such proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by such Indemnitee to repay the full amount 
advanced if there is a final determination that such Person did not satisfy the standards set forth 
in clauses (i) and (ii) above or that such Person is not entitled to indemnification as provided 
herein for other reasons. The tennination of any action, suit or proceeding by settlement shall 
not, of itself, create a presumption that a Person did not act in good faith. The Manager(s) may 
cause the Company to obtain insurance to cover the Company's obligations hereunder. 

17 



(Page 26 of 77) 

5.7. Power of 

5.7.1. Grant of . Each Interest Holder constitutes and appoints each of the 
Manager(s) as the Interest Holder's trne and lawful attorney-in-fact ("Attorney-in-Fact"), and in 
the Interest Holder's name, place and stead, to make, execute, sign, acknowledge, and file: 

(a) The Organizing Documents; 

(b) All documents (including amendments to the Organizing 
Documents) which the Attorney-in-Fact deems appropriate to reflect any amendment, change, or 
modification of this Agreement; 

(c) Any and all other certificates or other instruments required to be 
filed by the Company under the laws of the Slate of Organization or of any other state or 
jurisdiction, including, without limitation, any certificate or other instruments necessary in order 
for the Company to continue to a limited liability company under the laws of the State 
of Organization 

(d) One or more fictitious or trade name certificates; and 

(e) All documents which may be required to dissolve and terminate 
the Company and to cancel its Organizing Documents. 

5.7.2. . The foregoing power of attorney is irrevocable and is 
coupled with an interest, and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, shall survive the death or 
disability of an Interest Holder and be binding on such Interest Holder's heirs. It also shall 
survive the Transfer of an Interest, and if the transferee is approved for admission as a Member, 
this power of attorney shall survive the delivery of the assignment and enable the Attorney-in- 
Fact to execute, acknowledge and file any documents needed to effectuate the substitution. Each 
Interest Holder shall be bound by any representations made by the Attorney-in-Fact acting in 
good faith pursuant to this power of attorney, and each Interest Holder hereby waives any and all 
defenses which may be available to contest, negate or disaffirm the action of the Attorney-in- 
Fact taken in good faith under this power of attorney. 

ARTICLE 
TRANSFER OF INTERESTS, WITHDRAWALS, BUY SELL 

6.1. . Except as provided in this Section 6, no Interest Holder may Transfer 
any portion of, or any interest or rights in, an Interest or Unit. 

6.1.1. An Interest Holder may Transfer all or any portion of or any interest or 
rights in his or her Economic Interest if each of the following conditions ("Conditions of 

is satisfied or waived by the Manager(s) (in his, her or their sole discretion): 

18 



(Page 27 of 77) 

(a) Such Transfer will not require registration of Interests under any 
federal or state securities laws; 

(b) The transferee delivers to the Company a written instrument 
agreeing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

(c) Such Transfer will not result in the termination of the Company 
pursuant to Code Section 708; 

(d) Such Transfer will not result in the Company being subject to the 
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended; 

(e) The transferor or the transferee delivers the following information 
to the Company: (i) the transferee's taxpayer identification number and (ii) the transferee's initial 
tax basis in the transferred Economic Interest; 

(f) Such Transfer will not result in the Company being taxed as a 
corporation for federal or state income tax purposes; and 

(g) Except in the event of a Permitted Transfer, the transferor complies 
with the provisions set forth in Section 6.1.3. 

6.1.2. Rights of Transferee. Substitute . If the Conditions of Transfer 
are satisfied, then an Interest Holder may Transfer alt or any portion of that Interest Holder's 
Economic Interest. The Transfer of an Economic Interest pursuant to this Section 6.1 shall not 
result, however, in the Transfer of any of the transferor's other Interest, if any, and the transferee 
of the Economic Interest shall have no right to: (i) become a Member without the consent of the 
Manager(s) as required by this Agreement, or (ii) exercise any rights of a Member other than 
those specifically pertaining to the ownership of an Economic Interest. In the event that a 
transferee is admitted as a Member of the Company, the Schedule of Members shall be amended 
to reflect such admission. 

6.1.3. Right of First . 
(a) Except in the case of a Permitted Transfer, if an Interest Holder (a 

"Transferor") receives a bona fide written offer which the Interest Holder desires to accept (the 
"Transferee Offer") from any other Person, including another Interest Holder (a "Transferee") to 
purchase all or any portion of or any interest or rights in the Transferor's Economic Interest (the 
"Transferor Interest") then, prior to any Transfer of the Transferor's Interest, the Transferor shall 
give the Company written notice (the "Transfer Notice") containing the Transferee's identify; a 
true and complete copy of the Transferee Offer, and the Transferor's offer (the "Offer") to sell 
the Transferor Interest and any related Interest held by the Transferor to the Company pursuant 
to this Section 6.1.3 for consideration equal to that contained in the Transferee Offer or, if the 
consideration specified in the Transferee Offer is not specified as cash, then for reasonably 
equivalent consideration in U.S. Dollars (the "Transfer Purchase Price"). 

19 



(Page 28 of 77) 

(b) The Offer shall be and remain irrevocable for a period (the "Offer 
Period") ending at 11:59 P.M. local time at the Company's principal office, on the thirtieth (30th) 
day following the date the Transfer Notice is given to the Company. At any time during the 
Offer Period, the Company (or its assignee) may accept the Offer by notifying the Transferor in 
writing that the Company (or its assignee) desires to purchase all or part of the Transferor 
Interest The Transferor shall not be entitled to vote, either as a Member or Manager, in the 
Company's acceptance or rejection of the Offer. 

(c) If the Company and/or its assignee (collectively, the "Purchasers") 
have accepted the Offer prior to the end of the Offer Period, any Purchaser may give written 
notice to that effect to the Transferor specifying a closing date (the "Transfer Closing Date") for 
the purchase which shall be no earlier than ten (10) nor later than sixty (60) days after the 
expiration of the Offer Period. On the Transfer Closing Date the Purchasers shall pay the 
Transfer Purchase Price unless the Purchasers elect prior to or on the Transfer Closing Date to 
pay the Transfer Purchase Price in installments pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.4 of this 
Agreement. 

(d) If the Company does not accept the Offer (within the time and in 
the manner specified in this Section), then the Transferor shall be free for a period (the 
"Permitted Transfer Period") of thirty (30) days after the expiration of the Offer Period to 
Transfer the Transferor Interest to the Transferee, for the same or greater price and on the same 
terms and conditions as set forth in the Transfer Notice. The Transfer shall be subject, however, 
to the Conditions of Transfer and the provisions of Section 6.1.2. If the Transferor does not 
Transfer the Transferor's Interest within the Pennitted Transfer Period, the Transferor's right to 
Transfer the Transferor Interest pursuant to this Section shall cease and terminate. 

(e) Any Transfer by the Transferor after the last day of the Permitted 
Transfer Period or without strict compliance with the terms, provisions, and conditions of this 
Section and the other terms, provisions, and conditions of this Agreement, shall be null and void 
and of no force or effect. 

6.1.4. . Each Interest Holder hereby acknowledges the 
reasonableness of the prohibition contained in this Section 6.1 in view of the purposes of the 
Company and the relationship of the Interest Holders. The Transfer of any Interests in violation 
of the prohibition contained in this Section 6.1 shall be deemed invalid, null and void, and of no 
force or effect. Any Person to whom Interests are attempted to be transferred in violation of this 
Section 6.1 shall not be entitled to vote on matters coming before the Members, participate in the 
management of the Company, act as an agent of the Company or have any other rights in or with 
respect to the Interests. 

6.2. VolUntary . No Interest Holder shall have the right or power to effect 
a Voluntary Withdrawal from the Company. Any Interest Holder who effectuates a Voluntary 
Withdrawal in violation of this Agreement shall not be permitted to receive the fair value of its 
Interest as of the date of the Voluntary Withdrawal as otherwise provided by the Act. 

6.3. Optional Buy-out in Event of . 
20 



(Page 29 of 77) 

6.3.1. After an Involuntary Withdrawal, the withdrawn Interest Holder or the 
successor in interest to such Interest Holder (the "Withdrawn Member") shall be deemed to offer 
for sale to the Company (the "Withdrawal Offer") all of the Interests of the Withdrawn Member 
(the "Withdrawal Interest"). 

6.3.2. The Withdrawal Offer shall be and remain irrevocable for a period (the 
"Withdrawal Offer Period") ending at 11:59 P.M. local time at the Company's principal office on 
the ninetieth (90th) day following the date that the Manager(s) are notified of the withdrawal. At 
any time during the Withdrawal Offer Period, the Company may accept the Withdrawal Offer by 
notifying the Withdrawn Member of its acceptance (the "Withdrawal Notice"). Neither the 
Withdrawn Member nor any of its predecessors shall be entitled to vote, either as a Member or 
Manager, in the Company's acceptance or rejection of the Withdrawal Offer. 

6.3.3. If the Company accepts the Withdrawal Offer, the Withdrawal Notice 
shall fix a closing date (the "Withdrawal Closing Date") for the purchase which shall be not 
earlier than ten (10) or later than ninety (90) days after the expiration of the Withdrawal Period. 

6.3.4. If the Company accepts the Withdrawal Offer, the Company (or its 
assignee) shall purchase the Withdrawal Interest for the price equal to the fair market value of 
the Withdrawal Interest (the "Withdrawal Purchase Price") as determined by the disinterested 
Manager(s) in good.faith. The Withdrawal Purchase Price shall be paid, at the 
option, in cash on the Withdrawal Closing Date or in installments pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 6.4 of this Agreement. 

6.3.5. If the Company falls to accept the Withdrawal Offer, then the Withdrawn 
Member (or its predecessor), upon the expiration of the Withdrawal Offer Period, thereafter shall 
be an Interest Holder but shall not continue to be a Member. 

6.3.6. The Withdrawn Member shall not be entitled to receive the fair market 
value of its Interest as of the date of the Involuntary Withdrawal from the Company as otherwise 
provided by the Act. 

6.4. Instalhnent . If the Company or its assignee (the "Buyer"), is entitled 
under this Agreement to pay the purchase price on an instalhnent basis, the Buyer may pay 25% 
of the purchase price on closing of' the transaction and the remainder by executing and delivering 
its promissory note for the balance, to the Company, Interest Holder or Transferor, which note 
shall carry interest at the rate of 2% and provide for the payment of the remainder of the 
purchase price in three equal annual installments beginning one year after the closing of the 
transaction. 

6.5. Ri2htS of Interest Holder Who Has Transferred Economic In the event 
that an Interest Holder transfers his or her entire Economic Interest in the Company to a Person 
other than a Permitted Transferee, or has withdrawn from the Company, that Interest Holder 
shall not be entitled to vote or to participate in management, or any right to information 
concerning the business and affairs of the Company. 

21 



(Page 30 of 77) 

ARTICLE Vu 
DISSOLUTION, LIQUIDATION, AND TERMINATION OF THE COMPANY 

7.1. Events of . The Company shall be dissolved upon the happening of any of the following events: 

7.1.1. When the period fixed for its duration in Section 2.4 has expired; 

7.1.2. Upon a Majority Vote to dissolve; 

7.1.3. Upon the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the company; or 

7.1.4. The entry of a decree ofjudicial dissolution. 

7.2. Procedure for Windina-Ui, and . If the Company is dissolved, the Manager(s) or, if there is no remaining Manager, any Person elected by a Majority Vote, shall wind up its affairs. On winding up of the Company, the assets of the Company shall be distributed, first to creditors of the Company, including Interest Holders who are creditors, in satisfaction of the liabilities of the Company, and then to the Interest Holders in accordance with Section 4.4 of this Agreement. 

7.3. filing of Certificate of . Upon completion of winding up the affairs of the Company, the Manager(s) shall promptly file the Certificate of Cancellation with the Secretary of State. If there is no remaining Manager, such Certificate of Cancellation shall be filed by the Members. If there are no remaining Members, the Certificate of Cancellation shall be filed by the last Person to be a Member (or the legal or personal representatives of the last Person to be a Member). 

7.4. Conversion to . Upon the approval of a majority of the Manager(s) and a Majority of the Members, the Company shall be converted (by merger, consolidation, 
share exchange, state law conversion, transfer of assets of the Company to a newly formed corporation in exchange for stock followed by the liquidation of the Company, or transfer of Interests to a newly formed corporation in exchange for stock) into a newly formed corporation so as to convert the Company to a corporation. Such corporation shall have articles of incorporation and bylaws which the Manager(s) determine(s) are customary for corporations comparable to the Company at the time. The outstanding equity capitalization of the corporation 
upon consummation of such conversion shall, to the fullest extent possible, be identical to that of 
the Company immediately prior to such conversion, and the Units shall, automatically and with 
no further action by the Interest Holders, convert to shares of stock or other equity or substituted 
non-equity interests of reasonably equivalent value as determined by the Manager(s) in his, her 
or their sole discretion. Upon such conversion, the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
embodied in a stockholders agreement, which all of the Interest Holders agree to execute on the 
demand of the Manager. The Interest Holders shall take any actions and execute any documents 
reasonably requested by the Manager(s) in connection with any such conversion. 

22 



(Page 31 of 77) 

7.5. Drag-Along . 
7.5.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, unless the 

Manager(s) elect to apply the provisions of Section 7.4, in the event that a Majority of the 
Members agree to: 

(a) Sell or exchange all or substantially all of the Units held by Interest 
Holders (including, but not limited to, an incorporation, merger, conversion, consolidation or 
amalgamation of the Company with another limited liability company, corporation or other 
entity) in a single transaction or series of related transactions, or 

(b) 
substantially all of the assets of the Company, such transaction shall be a "Qualifying Transfer" 
for purposes of this Section 7.5 and shall be treated as a liquidation under Section 4.2.5. The 
Members that have initially agreed to participate in the Qualifying Transfer shall be referred to 
herein as the "Proposing Members". 

7.5.2. A Proposing Member shall, within 30 days of their agreement to 
participate in the Qualifying Transfer described in subsection 7.5.1(b), by written notice (the 
"Transfer Notice") to all the Interest Holders, require all the Interest Holders who are Members 
to vote their Units in favor of the Qualifying Transfer in accordance with Section 5.2.2. 

7.5.3. In the event of a Qualifying Transfer described in subsection 7.5.1(a) 
above, the Transfer Notice shall require all Interest Holders to sell or exchange in the Qualifying 
Transfer the Units then held by such Interest Holders. 

7.5.4. The proceeds of the Qualifying Transfer shall be distributed to the Interest 
Holders in the order and priority set forth in Section 4.1.2, aller the adjustments described in 
Sections 4.2.5(u) and (iii). 

7.5.5. To the extent required to effectuate this Section 7.5, each Member hereby 
grants to the Proposing Members an iffevocable proxy, coupled with an interest, to vote all of the Units held by such Member (whether at a meeting or by written consent) in favor of any 
Qualifying Transfer. 

ARTICLE VIII 
BOOKS, RECORDS, ACCOUNTING, AND TAX ELECTIONS 

8.1. Bank . All funds of the Company shall be deposited in a bank account or accounts opened in the Company's name. The Manager(s) shall determine the financial 
institution or institutions at which the accounts will be opened and maintained, the types of' 
accounts, and the Persons who will have authority with respect to the accounts and the funds 
therein. 

8.2. Maintenance of Books and . 
23 



(Page 32 of 77) 

8.2.1. The Manager(s) shall keep or cause to be kept complete and accurate 
books and records of the Company and supporting documentation of the transactions with 
respect to the conduct of the Company's business. The records shall include, but not be lunited 
to, complete and accurate information regarding the state of the business and financial condition 
of the Company, a copy of the Organizing Documents and this Agreementand all amendments 
to the Organizing Documents and this Agreement; a current list of the names and last known 
business, residence, or mailing addresses of all Interest Holders; and the Company's federal, 
state, or local tax returns. 

8.2.2. The books and records shall be maintained in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices and shall be available at the Company's principal office for 
examination by any Member or the Member's duly authorized representative at any and all 
reasonable times during normal business hours for any purpose reasonably related to such 
Member's interest as a Member. 

8.2.3. Each Member shall reimburse the Company for all costs and expenses 
incurred by the Company in connection with the Member's inspection and copying of the 
Company's books and records. 

8.3. Annual Accounting . The annual accounting period of the Company shall 
be its taxable year. The Company's taxable year shall be selected by the Manager(s), subject to 
the requirements and limitations of the Code. 

8.4. . Within seventy-five (75) days after the end of each taxable year of the 
Company, the Manager(s) shall cause to be sent to each Person who was a Member at any time 
during the accounting year then ended: (i) an annual compilation report, prepared by the 
Company's independent accountants in accordance with standards issued by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and (ii) a report summarizing the fees and other 
remuneration paid by the Company to any Member, the Manager(s) or any Affiliate in respect of 
the taxable year. In addition, within seventy-five (75) days after the end of each taxable year of 
the Company, the Manager(s) shall cause to be sent to each Person who was an Interest Holder at 
any time during the taxable year then ended, that tax information concerning the Company which 
is necessary for preparing the Interest Holder's income tax returns for that year. At the request of 
any Member, and at the Member's expense, the Manager(s) shall cause an audit of the 
Company's books and records to be prepared by independent accountants for the period 
requested by the Member. 

8.5. Tax Matters Partner shall have all powers and 
responsibilities provided in Code Section 6231, et seq. The Tax Matters Partner shall keep all 
Members informed of all notices from government taxing authorities which may come to the 
attention of the Tax Matters Partner. The Company shall pay and be responsible for all 
reasonable third-party costs and expenses incurred by the Tax Matters Partner in performing 
those duties. Any Interest Holder shall be responsible for any costs incurred by such Interest 
Holder with respect to any tax audit or tax-related adniinistrative or judicial proceeding against 
any Interest Holder, even though it relates to the Company. The Tax Matters Partner may not 

24 



(Page 33 of 77) 

compromise any dispute with the Internal Revenue Service without the approval of majority of 
the Member Units. 

8.6. Tax . The Manager(s) shall have the authority to make all Company 
elections permitted under the Code, including, without limitation, elections of methods of 
depreciation and elections under Code Section 754. The decision to make or not make an 
election shall be made in the sole and absolute discretion of the Manager(s). 

8.7. Title to Company . 
8.7.1. Except as provided in Section 8.7.2, all Company assets shall be held by 

the Company in its name. 

8.72. The Manager(s) may direct that legal title to all or any portion of the 
Assets be acquired or held in a name other than the Company's name. Without 

limiting the foregoing, the Manager(s) may cause title to be acquired and held in the names of 
the Manager(s) or in the names of trustees, nominees, or straw parties for the Company. It is 
expressly understood and agreed that the manner of holding title to the Company's assets (or any 
part thereof) is solely for the convenience of the Company, and all of the assets shall be treated 
as Company assets. 

ARTICLE X 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1. . Each Interest Holder shall execute all certificates and other 
documents and shall do all such filing, recording, publishing, and other acts as the Manager(s) 
deem(s) appropriate to comply with the requirements of law for the formation and operation of 
the Company and to comply with any laws, rules, and regulations relating to the acquisition, 
operation, or holding of the property of the Company. 

9.2. . Any notice, demand, consent, election, offer, approval, request, or 
other communication (collectively a "notice") required or permitted under this Agreement must 
be in writing and either delivered personally or sent by certified or registered mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested. Any notice to be given hereunder by the Company shall be 
given by the Manager(s). A notice must be addressed to an Interest Holder at the Interest 
Holde?s last known address on the records of the Company. A notice to the Company must be 
addressed to the Company's principai office. A notice delivwed personally will be deemed given 
only when acknowledged in writing by the person to whom it is delivered. A notice that is sent 
by mail will be deemed given three (3) business days after it is mallet Any party may 
designate, by notice to all of the others, substitute addresses or addressees for notices; and, 
thereafter, notices are to be directed to those substitute addresses or addressees. 

9.3 Comulete Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive 
statement of the agreement among the Members with respect to the subject matter. It supersedes 
all prior written and oral statements, including any prior representation, statement, condition, or 
warranty. 

25 



(Page 34 of 77) 

9.4. Airnlicable . All questions concerning the construction, validity, and 
interpretation of this Agreement and the perfonnance of the obligations imposed by this 
Agreement shall be governed by the internal law, not the law of conflicts, of the State of 
Organization. The parties of this Agreement consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts 
of, and the exclusivity of arbitration in, the State in which the Company Address is located. 

9.5. Section . The headings herein are inserted as a matter of convenience only 
and do not define, limit, or describe the scope of this Agreement or the intent of the provisions 
hereof. 

9.6. Binding . This Agreement is binding upon, and to the limited extent 
specifically provided herein, inures to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective heirs, 
executors, administrators, personal and legal representatives, successors, and assigns. 

9.7. . Common nouns and pronouns shall be deemed to refer to the masculine, 
feminine, neuter, singular and plural, as the identity of the Person may in the context require. 

9.8. Independent . This Agreement has been prepared by counsel to the 
Company. Each Member has been given the opportunity to consult with independent counsel of 
its own choosing with respect to entering into this Agreement. 

9.9. Separability of . Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered 
separable; and if, for any reason, any provision or provisions herein are detennined to be invalid 
and contrary to any existing or future law, such invalidity shall not impair the operation of or 
affect those portions of this Agreement which are valid. 

9.10. . This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more 
counterparts or fax copies, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which, when 
taken together, constitute one and the same document. The signature of any party to any 
counterpart or fax copy shall be deemed a signature to, and may be appended to, any other 
counterpart. 

9.11. Mediation and . 
9.11.1. . Before commencing any action or arbitration, the Interest 

Holders agree to mediate in a good faith attempt to mediate any dispute arising out of or related 
to this Agreement or any matter related to the operation of the Company. The Interest Holder 
seeking "Mediation" shall propose three mediators who have at least two years of mediating 
disputes arising out of or related to contractual disputes and who have no prior relationship, 
either personal or commercial in nature, with the Interest Holder. Within 10 days of such 
proposal, the other Interest Holder shall choose a "Mediator" from the three proposed mediators. 
After selection of a Mediator, the Interest Holder seeking mediation shall send the other party a 
"Notice of Mediation" which state the name and address of the Mediator and a date and time for 
mediation; provided that the dale and time for mediation shall be no sooner than thirty (30) days 
after the Notice of Mediation and no later than ninety (90) days after the Notice of Mediation. 

26 



(Page 35 of 77) 

The Notice of Mediation must include a description of the issues that the Interest Holder seeks to 
mediate. An Interest Holder may change the date of the mediation by notifying the other Interest 
Holder five days after receiving the Notice of Mediation. The Interest Holder seeking the change 
in mediation can choose another date for the mediation by obtaining the agreement of the other 
Interest Holder to a new date for the mediation. If the Interest Holders cannot agree to a new 
mediation date within 10 days after the request for a change in the date of mediation is made, any 
Interest Holder may submit available dates for a new date for mediation to the Mediator. All 
other Interest Holders will be required to submit available dates for a new date for mediation to 
the Mediator, and the Mediator is empowered to choose a new date for mediation. The Interest 
Holders will be required to attend mediation on the date that the Mediator selects. Any Interest 
Holder may petition or move to compel mediation in any court of competent jurisdiction. The 
Interest Holders agree that the prevailing party will be entitled to attorneys' fees and costs. The 
Interest Holders agree that they will each bear a pro rata share of the costs of mediation, 
including the costs of the mediator or any other fees associated with the mediation. 

9.11.2. . Any disputes arising hereunder which have not been resolved 
following mediation as provided in Section 9.11.1 above, shall be settled by "Arbitration" in the 
Preferred County, in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association for 
Commercial Arbitration. The Interest Holders agree that the Preferred County is a convenient 
forum for all parties. Such arbitration will be final and binding on Interest Holders and the 
Company, no appeals may be taken therefrom and judgment upon any award rendered may be 
entered in any court having jurisdiction therefor. 

9.12. . 
9.12.1. to any contrary provisions herein, this Agreement may be amended 

only upon a Majority Vote and with the consent of the Manager(s). Any provision of this 
Agreement may be waived from time to time with respect to rights of any Interest Holder by a 
written instrument executed by such Interest Holder, and any provision of this Agreement may be 
waived from time to time (other than a provision which by its own terms imposes a different vote 
requirement for its waiver) upon the consent of the Manager(s) and the affirmative vote of the same 
number of Members as would be required to amend such provision. Any Amendment shall be 
deemed to have prospective effect from the date that the Majority of the Members have executed the 
amendment unless otherwise stated to have an earlier effective date. 

9.12.2. Except with regard to amendments otherwise required or authorized under 
this Agreement, there shall be no amendment to this which would adversely affect an 
Interest Holder's right to Distributions unless the amendment: (i) is consented to by such Interest 
Holder or(ii) by its terms applies to each Interest Holder in a nondiscriminatory manner. There 
shall be no amendment that (i) increases an Interest Holder's obligation to make capital 
contributions to the Company or (ii) imposes personal liability upon an Interest Holder for any 
debts or obligations of the Company unless, in each case, the amendment is consented to by such 
Interest Holder. No amendment to this Agreement pursuant to Sections 4.2.2, 4.3.2, 4.4.3 or 
4.5.4 shall be deemed to materially and adversely impact upon the economic rights of any 
Interest Holders. 

27 





(Page 37 of 77) 

TRANSFERABILITY AND RESALE AND MAY NOT BE 
TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD EXCEPT AS PERMITFED 
UNDER THE ACT AND THE APPLICABLE STATE 
SECURITIES LAWS PURSUANT TO REGISTRATION OR 
EXEMPTION THEREFROM. UNITHOLDERS SHOULD BE 
AWARE ThAT THEY MAY BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE 
FrNANCIAL RISKS OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN 
INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME. THE ISSUER OF THESE 
SECURITIES MAY REQUIRE ANY OPINION OF COUNSEL 
IN FORM AND SUBSTANCE SATISFACTORY TO THE 
ISSUER TO THE EFFECT THAT ANY PROPOSED 
TRANSFER OR RESALE IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. 

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY MAY BE 
SUBJECT TO A RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL UPON AN 
AUEMPTED TRANSFER OF SUCH SECURITIES AND 
CERTAIN REPURCHASE RIGHTS IN FAVOR OF THE 
COMPANY, AND SUCH SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD 
OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED IF SUCH SECURITIES 
ARE SUBJECT TO SUCH COMPANY RIGHTS." 

Signature Page Follows] 

29 



(Page 38 of 77) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date set 
forth above. 

MEMBERS: 

Ritu Ghumman 

HEALTHYPETS, INC. 

MANAGER(S): 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO 
LIMITED LIABILITY AGREEMENT OF ENTIRELYPETS PHARMACY, LW 

30 

Ritu 



(Page 39 of 77) 

EXHIBIT A 
SCHEDULE OF MEMBERS 

Member Name and Address Contribution Date of Percentage/Number Vesting Terms 
Admission of Units 

RituGhuxnman Oct7.,2011 90.l%(901,000units) N/A 
2053 Sandalwood Ct. 
Palo Alto, CA 94303 

HealthyPets, Inc. Oct. 2011 9.9% (99,000 units) N/A 
do Dr. Mandeep Ghumman 
34501 Seventh St. 
Union City, CA 94587 

31 



The 2012 Florida Statutes 

Chapter 465 Pharmacy 

465.00 1 Short Title. 
465.002 Legislative findings; intent. 
465.003 Definitions. 
465.004 Board of Pharmacy. 
465.005 Authority to make rules. 
465.006 Disposition of fees; expenditures. 
465.007 Licensure by examination. 
465.0075 Licensure by endorsement; requirements; fee. 
465.008 Renewal of license. 
465.009 Continuing professional pharmaceutical education. 
465.0 12 Reactivation of license; continuing education. 
465.0125 Consultant pharmacist license; application, renewal, fees; 
responsibilities; rules. 
465.0126 Nuclear pharmacist license; application, renewal, fees. 
465.0 13 Registration of pharmacy interns. 
465.014 Pharmacy technician. 
465.0 15 Violations and penalties. 
465.0155 Standards of practice. 
465.0156 Registration of nonresident pharmacies. 
465.016 Disciplinary actions. 
465.0161 Distribution of medicinal drugs without a permit. 
465.0 17 Authority to inspect; disposal. 
465.018 Community pharmacies; permits. 
465.0181 Community pharmacy permit required to dispense Schedule II or 
Schedule III controlled substances. 
465.019 Institutional pharmacies; permits. 
465.0193 Nuclear pharmacy permits. 
465.0196 Special pharmacy permits. 
465.0197 Internet pharmacy permits. 
465.022 Pharmacies; general requirements; fees. 
465.023 Pharmacy permittee; disciplinary action. 
465.0235 Automated pharmacy systems used by long-term care facilities, 
hospices, or state correctional institutions. 
465.024 Promoting sale of certain drugs prohibited. 
465.0244 Information disclosure. 
465.025 Substitution of drugs. 
465.0251 Generic drugs; removal from formulary under specified circumstances. 
465.0255 Expiration date of medicinal drugs; display; related use and storage 
instructions. 
465.026 Filling of certain prescriptions. 
465.0265 Centralized prescription filling. 
465.0266 Common database. 
465.027 Exceptions. 
465.0275 Emergency prescription refill. 
465.0276 Dispensing practitioner. 
465.035 Dispensing of medicinal drugs pursuant to facsimile of prescription. 



465.185 Rebates prohibited; penalties. 
465.186 Pharmacist's order for medicinal drugs; dispensing procedure; 
development of formulary. 
465.187 Sale of medicinal drugs. 
465.188 Medicaid audits of pharmacies. 
465.189 Administration of vaccines and epinephrine autoinjection. 
465.1901 Practice of orthotics and pedorthics. 

465.001 Short Title.—This chapter shall be known as the "Florida Pharmacy Act." 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

465.002 Legislative findings; intent.—The Legislature finds that the practice of 
pharmacy is a learned profession. The sole legislative purpose for enacting this 
chapter is to ensure that every pharmacist practicing in this state and every 
pharmacy meet minimum requirements for safe practice. It is the legislative intent 
that pharmacists who fall below minimum competency or who otherwise present a 

danger to the public shall be prohibited from practicing in this state. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 1, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

465.003 Definitions.—As used in this chapter, the term: 
(1)"Administration" means the obtaining and giving of a single dose of medicinal 

drugs by a legally authorized person to a patient for her or his consumption. 
(2)"Board" means the Board of Pharmacy. 
(3)"Consultant pharmacist" means a pharmacist licensed by the department and 

certified as a consultant pharmacist pursuant to s. 465.0125. 
(4)"Data communication device" means an electronic device that receives 

electronic information from one source and transmits or routes it to another, 
including, but not limited to, any such bridge, router, switch, or gateway. 

(5)"Department" means the Department of Health. 
(6)"Dispense" means the transfer of possession of one or more doses of a 

medicinal drug by a pharmacist to the ultimate consumer or her or his agent. As an 
element of dispensing, the pharmacist shall, prior to the actual physical transfer, 
interpret and assess the prescription order for potential adverse reactions, 
interactions, and dosage regimen she or he deems appropriate in the exercise of her 
or his professional judgment, and the pharmacist shall certify that the medicinal drug 
called for by the prescription is ready for transfer. The pharmacist shall also provide 
counseling on proper drug usage, either orally or in writing, if in the exercise of her 
or his professional judgment counseling is necessary. The actual sales transaction 
and delivery of such drug shall not be considered dispensing. The administration 
shall not be considered dispensing. 

(7)"Institutional formulary system" means a method whereby the medical staff 
evaluates, appraises, and selects those medicinal drugs or proprietary preparations 
which in the medical staff's clinical judgment are most useful in patient care, and 
which are available for dispensing by a practicing pharmacist in a Class II 
institutional pharmacy. 

(8)"Medicinal drugs" or "drugs" means those substances or preparations commonly 
known as "prescription" or "legend" drugs which are required by federal or state law 
to be dispensed only on a prescription, but shall not include patents or proprietary 
preparations as hereafter defined. 



(9)"Patent or proprietary preparation" means a medicine in its unbroken, original 
package which is sold to the public by, or under the authority of, the manufacturer or 
primary distributor thereof and which is not misbranded under the provisions of the 
Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act. 

(1O)"Pharmacist" means any person licensed pursuant to this chapter to practice 
the profession of pharmacy. 

(11)(a)"Pharmacy" includes a community pharmacy, an institutional pharmacy, a 

nuclear pharmacy, a special pharmacy, and an Internet pharmacy. 
1.The term "community pharmacy" includes every location where medicinal drugs 

are compounded, dispensed, stored, or sold or where prescriptions are filled or 
dispensed on an outpatient basis. 

2.The term "institutional pharmacy" includes every location in a hospital, clinic, 
nursing home, dispensary, sanitarium, extended care facility, or other facility, 
hereinafter referred to as "health care institutions," where medicinal drugs are 
compounded, dispensed, stored, or sold. 

3.The term "nuclear pharmacy" includes every location where radioactive drugs 
and chemicals within the classification of medicinal drugs are compounded, 
dispensed, stored, or sold. The term "nuclear pharmacy" does not include hospitals 
licensed under chapter 395 or the nuclear medicine facilities of such hospitals. 

4.The term "special pharmacy" includes every location where medicinal drugs are 
compounded, dispensed, stored, or sold if such locations are not otherwise defined in 
this subsection. 

5.The term "Internet pharmacy" includes locations not otherwise licensed or issued 
a permit under this chapter, within or outside this state, which use the Internet to 
communicate with or obtain information from consumers in this state and use such 
communication or information to fill or refill prescriptions or to dispense, distribute, 
or otherwise engage in the practice of pharmacy in this state. Any act described in 
this definition constitutes the practice of pharmacy as defined in subsection (13). 

(b)The pharmacy department of any permittee shall be considered closed 
whenever a Florida licensed pharmacist is not present and on duty. The term "not 
present and on duty" shall not be construed to prevent a pharmacist from exiting the 
prescription department for the purposes of consulting or responding to inquiries or 
providing assistance to patients or customers, attending to personal hygiene needs, 
or performing any other function for which the pharmacist is responsible, provided 
that such activities are conducted in a manner consistent with the pharmacist's 
responsibility to provide pharmacy services. 

(12)"Pharmacy intern" means a person who is currently registered in, and 
attending, a duly accredited college or school of pharmacy, or who is a graduate of 
such a school or college of pharmacy, and who is duly and properly registered with 
the department as provided for under its rules. 

(13)"Practice of the profession of pharmacy" includes compounding, dispensing, 
and consulting concerning contents, therapeutic values, and uses of any medicinal 
drug; consulting concerning therapeutic values and interactions of patent or 
proprietary preparations, whether pursuant to prescriptions or in the absence and 
entirely independent of such prescriptions or orders; and other pharmaceutical 
services. For purposes of this subsection, "other pharmaceutical services" means the 
monitoring of the patient's drug therapy and assisting the patient in the 
management of his or her drug therapy, and includes review of the patient's drug 
therapy and communication with the patient's prescribing health care provider as 
licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 461, or chapter 466, or similar 
statutory provision in another jurisdiction, or such provider's agent or such other 
persons as specifically authorized by the patient, regarding the drug therapy. 
However, nothing in this subsection may be interpreted to permit an alteration of a 



prescriber's directions, the diagnosis or treatment of any disease, the initiation of 
any drug therapy, the practice of medicine, or the practice of osteopathic medicine, 
unless otherwise permitted by law. "Practice of the profession of pharmacy" also 
includes any other act, service, operation, research, or transaction incidental to, or 
forming a part of, any of the foregoing acts, requiring, involving, or employing the 
science or art of any branch of the pharmaceutical profession, study, or training, and 
shall expressly permit a pharmacist to transmit information from persons authorized 
to prescribe medicinal drugs to their patients. The practice of the profession of 
pharmacy also includes the administration of vaccines to adults pursuant to s. 
465. 189. 

(14)"Prescription" includes any order for drugs or medicinal supplies written or 
transmitted by any means of communication by a duly licensed practitioner 
authorized by the laws of the state to prescribe such drugs or medicinal supplies and 
intended to be dispensed by a pharmacist. The term also includes an orally 
transmitted order by the lawfully designated agent of such practitioner. The term 
also includes an order written or transmitted by a practitioner licensed to practice in 
a jurisdiction other than this state, but only if the pharmacist called upon to dispense 
such order determines, in the exercise of her or his professional judgment, that the 
order is valid and necessary for the treatment of a chronic or recurrent illness. The 
term "prescription" also includes a pharmacist's order for a product selected from the 
formulary created pursuant to s. 465.186. Prescriptions may be retained in written 
form or the pharmacist may cause them to be recorded in a data processing system, 
provided that such order can be produced in printed form upon lawful request. 

(15)"Nuclear pharmacist" means a pharmacist licensed by the department and 
certified as a nuclear pharmacist pursuant to s. 465.0126. 

(16)"Centralized prescription filling" means the filling of a prescription by one 
pharmacy upon request by another pharmacy to fill or refill the prescription. The 
term includes the performance by one pharmacy for another pharmacy of other 
pharmacy duties such as drug utilization review, therapeutic drug utilization review, 
claims adjudication, and the obtaining of refill authorizations. 

(17)"Automated pharmacy system" means a mechanical system that delivers 
prescription drugs received from a Florida licensed pharmacy and maintains related 
transaction information. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; s. 322, ch. 81-259; ss. 14, 15, ch. 81-302; ss. 2, 3, 
ch. 81-318; ss. 1, 2, ch. 82-179; s. 1, ch. 83-101; s. 36, ch. 83-216; s. 3, ch. 83- 
265; s. 29, ch. 83-329; s. 1, ch. 85-35; ss. 2, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 1, ch. 88-172; 
s. 1, ch. 89-77; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 123, ch. 94- 
218; s. 239, ch. 97-103; s. 87, ch. 97-264; s. 118, ch. 99-397; s. 1, ch. 2002-182; 
s. 1, ch. 2004-25; s. 1, ch. 2004-387; s. 2, ch. 2007-152; s. 2, ch. 2012-60. 

465.004 Board of Pharmacy.— 
(1)The Board of Pharmacy is created within the department and shall consist of 

nine members to be appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Senate. 
(2)Seven members of the board must be licensed pharmacists who are residents of 

this state and who have been engaged in the practice of the profession of pharmacy 
in this state for at least 4 years and, to the extent practicable, represent the various 
pharmacy practice settings. Of the pharmacist members, one must be currently 
engaged in the practice of pharmacy in a community pharmacy, one must be 
currently engaged in the practice of pharmacy in a Class II institutional pharmacy or 
a Modified Class II institutional pharmacy, and five shall be pharmacists licensed in 
this state irrespective of practice setting. The remaining two members must be 
residents of the state who have never been licensed as pharmacists and who are in 



no way connected with the practice of the profession of pharmacy. No person may be 
appointed as a consumer member who is in any way connected with a drug 
manufacturer or wholesaler. At least one member of the board must be 60 years of 
age or older. 

(3)As the terms of the members expire, the Governor shall appoint successors for 
terms of 4 years, and such members shall serve until their successors are appointed. 

(4)All provisions of chapter 456 relating to activities of the board shall apply. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 3, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 16, 
ch. 87-172; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 124, ch. 94- 
218; s. 88, ch. 97-264; s. 67, ch. 98-166; s. 124, ch. 2000-160. 

465.00 5Authority to make rules.—The Board of Pharmacy has authority to adopt 
rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to implement the provisions of this 
chapter conferring duties upon it. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 4, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; 5. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 126, ch. 98-200. 

465.006 Disposition of fees; expenditures.—All moneys received under this chapter 
shall be deposited and expended pursuant to the provisions of s. 456.025. All 
expenditures for duties of the board authorized by this chapter shall be paid upon 
presentation of vouchers approved by the executive director of the board. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 68, ch. 98-166; s. 125, ch. 2000- 
160. 

465.007 Licensure by examination.— 
(1)Any person desiring to be licensed as a pharmacist shall apply to the 

department to take the licensure examination. The department shall examine each 
applicant who the board certifies has: 

(a)Completed the application form and remitted an examination fee set by the 
board not to exceed $100 plus the actual per applicant cost to the department for 
purchase of portions of the examination from the National Association of Boards of 
Pharmacy or a similar national organization. The fees authorized under this section 
shall be established in sufficient amounts to cover administrative costs. 

(b)Submitted satisfactory proof that she or he is not less than 18 years of age and: 
1.Is a recipient of a degree from a school or college of pharmacy accredited by an 

accrediting agency recognized and approved by the United States Office of 
Education; or 

2.Is a graduate of a 4-year undergraduate pharmacy program of a school or 
college of pharmacy located outside the United States, has demonstrated proficiency 
in English by passing both the Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL) and 
the Test of Spoken English (TSE), has passed the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate 
Equivalency Examination that is approved by rule of the board, and has completed a 

minimum of 500 hours in a supervised work activity program within this state under 
the supervision of a pharmacist licensed by the department, which program is 
approved by the board. 

(c)Submitted satisfactory proof that she or he has completed an internship 
program approved by the board. No such board-approved program shall exceed 
2,080 hours, all of which may be obtained prior to graduation. 

(2)The department may permit an applicant who has satisfied all requirements of 
subsection (1), except those relating to age or the internship program, to take the 
written examination, but the passing of the examination shall confer no rights or 



privileges upon the applicant in connection with the practice of pharmacy in this 
state. 

(3)Except as provided in subsection (2), the department shall issue a license to 
practice pharmacy to any applicant who successfully completes the examination in 
accordance with this section. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 13, 15, 23, 25, 30, 34, 62, ch. 80-406; ss. 2, 3, 
ch. 81-318; s. 30, ch. 83-329; ss. 5, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 13, ch. 88-205; s. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 240, ch. 97-103. 

465.0075 Licensure by endorsement; requirements; fee.— 
(1)The department shall issue a license by endorsement to any applicant who 

applies to the department and remits a nonrefundable fee of not more than $100, as 
set by the board, and whom the board certifies: 

(a)Has met the qualifications for licensure in s. 465.007(1)(b) and (c); 
(b)Has obtained a passing score, as established by rule of the board, on the 

licensure examination of the National Association of Boards of Pharmacy or a similar 
nationally recognized examination, if the board certifies that the applicant has taken 
the required examination; 

(c)1.Has submitted evidence of the active licensed practice of pharmacy, including 
practice in community or public health by persons employed by a governmental 
entity, in another jurisdiction for at least 2 of the immediately preceding 5 years or 
evidence of successful completion of board-approved postgraduate training or a 

board-approved clinical competency examination within the year immediately 
preceding application for licensure; or 

2.Has completed an internship meeting the requirements of s. 465.007(1)(c) 
within the 2 years immediately preceding application; and 

(d)Has obtained a passing score on the pharmacy jurisprudence portions of the 
licensure examination, as required by board rule. 

(2)An applicant licensed in another state for a period in excess of 2 years from the 
date of application for licensure in this state shall submit a total of at least 30 hours 
of board-approved continuing education for the 2 calendar years immediately 
preceding application. 

(3)The department may not issue a license by endorsement to any applicant who 
is under investigation in any jurisdiction for an act or offense that would constitute a 

violation of this chapter until the investigation is complete, at which time the 
provisions of s. 465.0 16 apply. 

(4)The department may not issue a license by endorsement to any applicant whose 
license to practice pharmacy has been suspended or revoked in another state or who 
is currently the subject of any disciplinary proceeding in another state. 
History.—s. 1, ch. 2001-166; s. 1, ch. 2008-216. 

465.008 Renewal of license.— 
(1)The department shall renew a license upon receipt of the renewal application, 

verification of compliance with s. 465.009, and receipt of a fee set by the board not 
to exceed $250. 

(2)The department shall adopt rules establishing a procedure for the biennial 
renewal of licenses. 

(3)Any person licensed under this chapter for 50 years or more is exempt from the 
payment of the renewal or delinquent fee, and the department shall issue a lifetime 
license to such a person. 



History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 6, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 7, 
ch. 90-341; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 178, ch. 94- 
119; s. 32, ch. 2001-277. 

465.009 Continuing professional pharmaceutical education.— 
(1)No license renewal shall be issued by the department until the licensee submits 

proof satisfactory to the board that during the 2 years prior to her or his application 
for renewal the licensee has participated in not less than 30 hours of continuing 
professional pharmaceutical education in courses approved by the board. 

(2)The board shall approve only those courses that build upon the basic courses 
offered in the curricula of accredited colleges or schools of pharmacy, and the board 
shall require that the provider meets the educational standards for the program 
design, administration, and evaluation established by the board. 

(3)Upon initial licensure, the department may reduce the number of required hours 
consistent with the requirements of biennial renewal. 

(4)The department may make exception from the requirements of this section in 
an emergency or hardship case. 

(5)The board may adopt rules within the requirements of this section that are 
necessary for its implementation, including a rule creating a committee composed of 
equal representation from the board, the colleges of pharmacy in the state, and 
practicing pharmacists within the state, whose purpose shall be to approve the 
content of each course offered for continuing education credit prior to the time such 
course is offered. 

(6)Notwithstanding subsections (1)-(5): 
(a)Each pharmacist certified to administer a vaccine or epinephrine autoinjection 

under s. 465.189 must complete a 3-hour continuing education course, which shall 
be offered by a statewide professional association of physicians in this state 
accredited to provide educational activities designated for the American Medical 
Association Physician's Recognition Award (AMA PRA) Category I credit, on the safe 
and effective administration of vaccines and epinephrine autoinjection as part of 
biennial relicensure or recertification. This course may be offered in a distance- 
learning format and must be included in the 30 hours of continuing professional 
pharmaceutical education specified in subsection (1). 

(b)Each pharmacist must submit confirmation of having completed the course 
specified in paragraph (a) on a form provided by the board when submitting fees for 
license renewal. 

(c)Failure to comply with paragraphs (a) and (b) results in the revocation of the 
authorization for a pharmacist to administer a vaccine or epinephrine autoinjection 
under s. 465.189. Such authorization may be restored upon completion of such 
requirements. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 7, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 241, ch. 97-103; s. 1, ch. 2002- 
184; s. 3, ch. 2012-60. 

465.012 Reactivation of license; continuing education.— 
(1)The board shall prescribe by rule continuing education requirements as a 

condition of reactivating a license. The continuing education requirements for 
reactivating a license shall be at least 15 classroom hours for each year the license 
was inactive in addition to completion of the number of hours required for renewal on 
the date the license became inactive. 

(2)The board shall adopt rules relating to application procedures for inactive 
status, to the biennial renewal of inactive licenses, and to the reactivation of 



licenses. The board shall prescribe by rule an application fee for inactive status, a 

renewal fee for inactive status, a delinquency fee, and a fee for the reactivation of a 

license. None of these fees may exceed the biennial renewal fee established by the 
board for an active license. The department may not reactivate a license unless the 
inactive or delinquent licensee has paid any applicable biennial renewal or 
delinquency fee, or both, and a reactivation fee. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; s. 323, ch. 81-259; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 2, 30, 
ch. 82-179; s. 3, ch. 83-265; ss. 8, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 8, ch. 90-341; s. 59, ch. 
91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 179, ch. 94-119. 

465.0125 Consultant pharmacist license; application, renewal, fees; responsibilities; 
rules.— 

(1)The department shall issue or renew a consultant pharmacist license upon 
receipt of an initial or renewal application which conforms to the requirements for 
consultant pharmacist initial licensure or renewal as promulgated by the board by 
rule and a fee set by the board not to exceed $250. The consultant pharmacist shall 
be responsible for maintaining all drug records required by law and for establishing 
drug handling procedures for the safe handling and storage of drugs. The consultant 
pharmacist may also be responsible for ordering and evaluating any laboratory or 
clinical testing when, in the judgment of the consultant pharmacist, such activity is 
necessary for the proper performance of the consultant pharmacist's responsibilities. 
Such laboratory or clinical testing may be ordered only with regard to patients 
residing in a nursing home facility, and then only when authorized by the medical 
director of the nursing home facility. The consultant pharmacist must have 
completed such additional training and demonstrate such additional qualifications in 
the practice of institutional pharmacy as shall be required by the board in addition to 
licensure as a registered pharmacist. 

(2)Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (1), a consultant pharmacist or a 

doctor of pharmacy licensed in this state may also be responsible for ordering and 
evaluating any laboratory or clinical testing for persons under the care of a licensed 
home health agency when, in the judgment of the consultant pharmacist or doctor of 
pharmacy, such activity is necessary for the proper performance of his or her 
responsibilities and only when authorized by a practitioner licensed under chapter 
458, chapter 459, chapter 461, or chapter 466. In order for the consultant 
pharmacist or doctor of pharmacy to qualify and accept this authority, he or she 
must receive 3 hours of continuing education relating to laboratory and clinical 
testing as established by the board. 

(3)The board shall promulgate rules necessary to implement and administer this 
section. 
History.—s. 31, ch. 83-329; s. 1, ch. 85-65; ss. 9, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, ch. 91- 
137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 1, ch. 93-231; s. 89, ch. 97-264. 

465.0126 Nuclear pharmacist license; application, renewal, fees.—The department 
shall issue or renew a nuclear pharmacist license upon receipt of an initial or renewal 
application which conforms to the requirements for nuclear pharmacist initial 
licensure or biennial renewal as established by the board by rule and receipt of a fee 
established by the board by rule not to exceed $250, which fee shall be in addition to 
the initial licensure or biennial renewal fee for pharmacists. The nuclear pharmacist 
shall be responsible for the compounding and the dispensing of nuclear 
pharmaceuticals, for maintaining all drug records required by law, for establishing 
drug handling procedures for the safe handling and storage of radiopharmaceuticals 
and medicinal drugs, for providing the security of the prescription department, and 



for complying with such other rules as relate to the practice of the profession of 
pharmacy. The nuclear pharmacist must have completed such additional training and 
must demonstrate such additional qualifications in the practice of nuclear pharmacy 
as is required by the board by rule in addition to licensure as a registered 
pharmacist. The board shall adopt rules necessary to implement and administer this 
section. The requirements of this section do not apply to hospitals licensed under 
chapter 395 or the nuclear medicine facilities of such hospitals. 
History.—s. 2, ch. 88-172; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

465.013 Registration of pharmacy interns.—The department shall register as 
pharmacy interns persons certified by the board as being enrolled in an intern 
program at an accredited school or college of pharmacy or who are graduates of 
accredited schools or colleges of pharmacy and are not yet licensed in the state. The 
board may refuse to certify to the department or may revoke the registration of any 
intern for good cause, including grounds enumerated in this chapter for revocation of 
pharmacists' licenses. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

465.014 Pharmacy technician.— 
(1)A person other than a licensed pharmacist or pharmacy intern may not engage 

in the practice of the profession of pharmacy, except that a licensed pharmacist may 
delegate to pharmacy technicians who are registered pursuant to this section those 
duties, tasks, and functions that do not fall within the purview of s. 465.003(13). All 
such delegated acts shall be performed under the direct supervision of a licensed 
pharmacist who shall be responsible for all such acts performed by persons under his 
or her supervision. A pharmacy registered technician, under the supervision of a 

pharmacist, may initiate or receive communications with a practitioner or his or her 
agent, on behalf of a patient, regarding refill authorization requests. A licensed 
pharmacist may not supervise more than one registered pharmacy technician unless 
otherwise permitted by the guidelines adopted by the board. The board shall 
establish guidelines to be followed by licensees or permittees in determining the 
circumstances under which a licensed pharmacist may supervise more than one but 
not more than three pharmacy technicians. 

(2)Any person who wishes to work as a pharmacy technician in this state must 
register by filing an application with the board on a form adopted by rule of the 
board. The board shall register each applicant who has remitted a registration fee set 
by the board, not to exceed $50 biennially; has completed the application form and 
remitted a nonrefundable application fee set by the board, not to exceed $50; is at 
least 17 years of age; and has completed a pharmacy technician training program 
approved by the Board of Pharmacy. Notwithstanding any requirements in this 
subsection, any registered pharmacy technician registered pursuant to this section 
before January 1, 2011, who has worked as a pharmacy technician for a minimum of 
1,500 hours under the supervision of a licensed pharmacist or received certification 
as a pharmacy technician by certification program accredited by the National 
Commission for Certifying Agencies is exempt from the requirement to complete an 
initial training program for purposes of registration as required by this subsection. 

(3)A person whose license to practice pharmacy has been denied, suspended, or 
restricted for disciplinary purposes is not eligible to register as a pharmacy 
technician. 

(4)Notwithstanding the requirements of this section or any other provision of law, 
a pharmacy technician student who is enrolled in a pharmacy technician training 



program that is approved by the board may be placed in a pharmacy for the purpose 
of obtaining practical training. A pharmacy technician student shall wear 
identification that indicates his or her student status when performing the functions 
of a pharmacy technician, and registration under this section is not required. 

(5)Notwithstanding the requirements of this section or any other provision of law, 
a person who is licensed by the state as a pharmacy intern may be employed as a 

registered pharmacy technician without paying a registration fee or filing an 
application with the board to register as a pharmacy technician. 

(6)As a condition of registration renewal, a registered pharmacy technician shall 
complete 20 hours biennially of continuing education courses approved by the board 
or the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education, of which 4 hours must be via 
live presentation and 2 hours must be related to the prevention of medication errors 
and pharmacy law. 

(7)The board shall adopt rules that require each registration issued by the board 
under this section to be displayed in such a manner as to make it available to the 
public and to facilitate inspection by the department. The board may adopt other 
rules as necessary to administer this section. 

(8)If the board finds that an applicant for registration as a pharmacy technician or 
that a registered pharmacy technician has committed an act that constitutes grounds 
for discipline as set forth in s. 456.072(1) or has committed an act that constitutes 
grounds for denial of a license or disciplinary action as set forth in this chapter, 
including an act that constitutes a substantial violation of s. 456.072(1) or a violation 
of this chapter which occurred before the applicant or registrant was registered as a 

pharmacy technician, the board may enter an order imposing any of the penalties 
specified in s. 456.072(2) against the applicant or registrant. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 10, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; S. 

59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 242, ch. 97-103; s. 192, ch. 
97-264; s. 120, ch. 99-397; ss. 2, 3, 4, ch. 2008-216. 

465.015 Violations and penalties.— 
(1)It is unlawful for any person to own, operate, maintain, open, establish, 

conduct, or have charge of, either alone or with another person or persons, a 

pharmacy: 
(a)Which is not registered under the provisions of this chapter. 
(b)In which a person not licensed as a pharmacist in this state or not registered as 

an intern in this state or in which an intern who is not acting under the direct and 
immediate personal supervision of a licensed pharmacist fills, compounds, or 
dispenses any prescription or dispenses medicinal drugs. 

(2)It is unlawful for any person: 
(a)To make a false or fraudulent statement, either for herself or himself or for 

another person, in any application, affidavit, or statement presented to the board or 
in any proceeding before the board. 

(b)To fill, compound, or dispense prescriptions or to dispense medicinal drugs if 
such person does not hold an active license as a pharmacist in this state, is not 
registered as an intern in this state, or is an intern not acting under the direct and 
immediate personal supervision of a licensed pharmacist. 

(c)To sell or dispense drugs as defined in s. 465.003(8) without first being 
furnished with a prescription. 

(d)To sell samples or complimentary packages of drug products. 
(3)It is unlawful for any pharmacist to knowingly fail to report to the sheriff or 

other chief law enforcement agency of the county where the pharmacy is located 
within 24 hours after learning of any instance in which a person obtained or 



attempted to obtain a controlled substance, as defined in s. 893.02, or at the close 
of business on the next business day, whichever is later, that the pharmacist knew 
or believed was obtained or attempted to be obtained through fraudulent methods or 
representations from the pharmacy at which the pharmacist practiced pharmacy. Any 
pharmacist who knowingly fails to make such a report within 24 hours after learning 
of the fraud or attempted fraud or at the close of business on the next business day, 
whichever is later, commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as 
provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. A sufficient report of the fraudulent obtaining 
of controlled substances under this subsection must contain, at a minimum, a copy 
of the prescription used or presented and a narrative, including all information 
available to the pharmacist concerning the transaction, such as the name and 
telephone number of the prescribing physician; the name, description, and any 
personal identification information pertaining to the person who presented the 
prescription; and all other material information, such as photographic or video 
surveillance of the transaction. 

(4)(a)It is unlawful for any person other than a pharmacist licensed under this 
chapter to use the title "pharmacist" or "druggist" or otherwise lead the public to 
believe that she or he is engaged in the practice of pharmacy. 

(b)It is unlawful for any person other than an owner of a pharmacy registered 
under this chapter to display any sign or to take any other action that would lead the 
public to believe that such person is engaged in the business of compounding, 
dispensing, or retailing any medicinal drugs. This paragraph shall not preclude a 

person not licensed as a pharmacist from owning a pharmacy. 
(c)It is unlawful for a person, firm, or corporation that is not licensed or registered 

under this chapter to: 
1.Use in a trade name, sign, letter, or advertisement any term, including "drug," 

"pharmacy," "prescription drugs," "Rx," or "apothecary," which implies that the 
person, firm, or corporation is licensed or registered to practice pharmacy in this 
state. 

2.Hold himself or herself out to others as a person, firm, or corporation licensed or 
registered to practice pharmacy in this state. 

(d)It is unlawful for a person who is not registered as a pharmacy technician under 
this chapter or who is not otherwise exempt from the requirement to register as a 

pharmacy technician, to perform the functions of a registered pharmacy technician, 
or hold himself or herself out to others as a person who is registered to perform the 
functions of a registered pharmacy technician in this state. 

(5)Any person who violates any provision of subsection (1) or subsection (4) 
commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or 
s. 775.083. Any person who violates any provision of subsection (2) commits a 

felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 
775.084. In any warrant, information, or indictment, it shall not be necessary to 
negative any exceptions, and the burden of any exception shall be upon the 
defendant. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 11, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 
59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 91, ch. 91-224; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 243, ch. 97- 
103; s. 121, ch. 99-397; s. 55, ch. 2000-318; s. 2, ch. 2004-25; s. 5, ch. 2008-216; 
s. 10, ch. 2011-141. 

465.0155 Standards of practice.—Consistent with the provisions of this act, the 
board shall adopt by rule standards of practice relating to the practice of pharmacy 
which shall be binding on every state agency and shall be applied by such agencies 



when enforcing or implementing any authority granted by any applicable statute, 
rule, or regulation, whether federal or state. 
History.—ss. 12, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91- 
429. 

465.0156 Registration of nonresident pharmacies.— 
(1)Any pharmacy which is located outside this state and which ships, mails, or 

delivers, in any manner, a dispensed medicinal drug into this state shall be 
considered a nonresident pharmacy, shall be registered with the board, shall provide 
pharmacy services at a high level of protection and competence, and shall disclose to 
the board the following specific information: 

(a)That it maintains at all times a valid, unexpired license, permit, or registration 
to operate the pharmacy in compliance with the laws of the state in which the 
dispensing facility is located and from which the medicinal drugs shall be dispensed; 

(b)The location, names, and titles of all principal corporate officers and the 
pharmacist who serves as the prescription department manager for dispensing 
medicinal drugs to residents of this state. This disclosure shall be made within 30 
days after any change of location, corporate officer, or pharmacist serving as the 
prescription department manager for dispensing medicinal drugs to residents of this 
state; 

(c)That it complies with all lawful directions and requests for information from the 
regulatory or licensing agency of all states in which it is licensed as well as with all 
requests for information made by the board pursuant to this section. It shall respond 
directly to all communications from the board concerning emergency circumstances 
arising from errors in the dispensing of medicinal drugs to the residents of this state; 

(d)That it maintains its records of medicinal drugs dispensed to patients in this 
state so that the records are readily retrievable from the other business records of 
the pharmacy and from the records of other medicinal drugs dispensed; and 

(e)That during its regular hours of operation but not less than 6 days per week, for 
a minimum of 40 hours per week, a toll-free telephone service shall be provided to 
facilitate communication between patients in this state and a pharmacist at the 
pharmacy who has access to the patient's records. This toll-free number must be 
disclosed on the label affixed to each container of dispensed medicinal drugs. 

(2)Applications for nonresident pharmacy registration under this section shall be 
made on a form furnished by the board. The board may require such information as 
the board deems reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes of this section. The 
board may grant an exemption from the registration requirements of this section to 
any nonresident pharmacy which confines its dispensing activity to isolated 
transactions. The board may define by rule the term isolated transactions. 

(3)The registration fee and the biennial renewal fee shall be the fee specified in s. 
465.022. 

(4)The board may deny, revoke, or suspend registration of, or fine or reprimand, a 

nonresident pharmacy for failure to comply with s. 465.025 or with any requirement 
of this section in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. 

(5)In addition to the prohibitions of subsection (4) the board may deny, revoke, or 
suspend registration of, or fine or reprimand, a nonresident pharmacy in accordance 
with the provisions of this chapter for conduct which causes serious bodily injury or 
serious psychological injury to a resident of this state if the board has referred the 
matter to the regulatory or licensing agency in the state in which the pharmacy is 
located and the regulatory or licensing agency fails to investigate within 180 days of 
the referral. 



(6)It is unlawful for any nonresident pharmacy which is not registered pursuant to 
this section to advertise its services in this state, or for any person who is a resident 
of this state to advertise the pharmacy services of a nonresident pharmacy which 
has not registered with the board, with the knowledge that the advertisement will or 
is likely to induce members of the public in this state to use the pharmacy to fill 
prescriptions. 

(7)This section does not apply to Internet pharmacies required to be permitted 
under s. 465.0197. 

(8)Notwithstanding s. 465.003(10), for purposes of this section, the registered 
pharmacy and the pharmacist designated by the registered pharmacy as the 
prescription department manager or the equivalent must be licensed in the state of 
location in order to dispense into this state. 
History.—ss. 13, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 3, ch. 89-218; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91- 
156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 31, ch. 95-144; s. 90, ch. 97-264; s. 2, ch. 2004-387. 

465.016 Disciplinary actions.— 
(1)The following acts constitute grounds for denial of a license or disciplinary 

action, as specified in s. 456.072(2): 
(a)Obtaining a license by misrepresentation or fraud or through an error of the 

department or the board. 
(b)Procuring or attempting to procure a license for any other person by making or 

causing to be made any false representation. 
(c)Permitting any person not licensed as a pharmacist in this state or not 

registered as an intern in this state, or permitting a registered intern who is not 
acting under the direct and immediate personal supervision of a licensed pharmacist, 
to fill, compound, or dispense any prescriptions in a pharmacy owned and operated 
by such pharmacist or in a pharmacy where such pharmacist is employed or on duty. 

(d)Being unfit or incompetent to practice pharmacy by reason of: 
1.Habitual intoxication. 
2.The misuse or abuse of any medicinal drug appearing in any schedule set forth in 

chapter 893. 
3.Any abnormal physical or mental condition which threatens the safety of persons 

to whom she or he might sell or dispense prescriptions, drugs, or medical supplies or 
for whom she or he might manufacture, prepare, or package, or supervise the 
manufacturing, preparation, or packaging of, prescriptions, drugs, or medical 
supplies. 

(e)Violating chapter 499; 21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392, known as the Federal Food, Drug, 
and cosmetic Act; 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 et seq., known as the comprehensive Drug 
Abuse Prevention and control Act; or chapter 893. 

(f)Having been convicted or found guilty, regardless of adjudication, in a court of 
this state or other jurisdiction, of a crime which directly relates to the ability to 
practice pharmacy or to the practice of pharmacy. A plea of nob contendere 
constitutes a conviction for purposes of this provision. 

(g)Using in the compounding of a prescription, or furnishing upon prescription, an 
ingredient or article different in any manner from the ingredient or article prescribed, 
except as authorized in s. 465.019(6) or s. 465.025. 

(h)Having been disciplined by a regulatory agency in another state for any offense 
that would constitute a violation of this chapter. 

(i)Compounding, dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, including any controlled 
substance, other than in the course of the professional practice of pharmacy. For 
purposes of this paragraph, it shall be legally presumed that the compounding, 
dispensing, or distributing of legend drugs in excessive or inappropriate quantities is 



not in the best interests of the patient and is not in the course of the professional 
practice of pharmacy. 

(j)Making or filing a report or record which the licensee knows to be false, 
intentionally or negligently failing to file a report or record required by federal or 
state law, willfully impeding or obstructing such filing, or inducing another person to 
do so. Such reports or records include only those which the licensee is required to 
make or file in her or his capacity as a licensed pharmacist. 

(k)Failing to make prescription fee or price information readily available by failing 
to provide such information upon request and upon the presentation of a prescription 
for pricing or dispensing. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit the 
quotation of price information on a prescription drug to a potential consumer by 
telephone. 

(l)Placing in the stock of any pharmacy any part of any prescription compounded 
or dispensed which is returned by a patient; however, in a hospital, nursing home, 
correctional facility, or extended care facility in which unit-dose medication is 
dispensed to inpatients, each dose being individually sealed and the individual unit 
dose or unit-dose system labeled with the name of the drug, dosage strength, 
manufacturer's control number, and expiration date, if any, the unused unit dose of 
medication may be returned to the pharmacy for redispensing. Each pharmacist shall 
maintain appropriate records for any unused or returned medicinal drugs. 

(m)Being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason of 
illness, use of drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result 
of any mental or physical condition. A pharmacist affected under this paragraph shall 
at reasonable intervals be afforded an opportunity to demonstrate that she or he can 
resume the competent practice of pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety to her 
or his customers. 

(n)Violating a rule of the board or department or violating an order of the board or 
department previously entered in a disciplinary hearing. 

(o)Failing to report to the department any licensee under chapter 458 or under 
chapter 459 who the pharmacist knows has violated the grounds for disciplinary 
action set out in the law under which that person is licensed and who provides health 
care services in a facility licensed under chapter 395, or a health maintenance 
organization certificated under part I of chapter 641, in which the pharmacist also 
provides services. 

(p)Failing to notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing within 20 days of the 
commencement or cessation of the practice of the profession of pharmacy in Florida 
when such commencement or cessation of the practice of the profession of pharmacy 
in Florida was a result of a pending or completed disciplinary action or investigation 
in another jurisdiction. 

(q)Using or releasing a patient's records except as authorized by this chapter and 
chapter 456. 

(r)Violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted 
pursuant thereto. 

(s)Dispensing any medicinal drug based upon a communication that purports to be 
a prescription as defined by s. 465.003(14) or s. 893.02 when the pharmacist knows 
or has reason to believe that the purported prescription is not based upon a valid 
practitioner-patient relationship. 

(t)Committing an error or omission during the performance of a specific function of 
prescription drug processing, which includes, for purposes of this paragraph: 

1.Receiving, interpreting, or clarifying a prescription. 
2.Entering prescription data into the pharmacy's record. 
3.Verifying or validating a prescription. 
4.Performing pharmaceutical calculations. 



5.Performing prospective drug review as defined by the board. 
6.Obtaining refill and substitution authorizations. 
7.Interpreting or acting on clinical data. 
8.Performing therapeutic interventions. 
9.Providing drug information concerning a patient's prescription. 
10.Providing patient counseling. 
(2)The board may enter an order denying licensure or imposing any of the 

penalties in s. 456.072(2) against any applicant for licensure or licensee who is 
found guilty of violating any provision of subsection (1) of this section or who is 
found guilty of violating any provision of s. 456.072(1). 

(3)The board shall not reinstate the license of a pharmacist, or cause a license to 
be issued to a person it has deemed unqualified, until such time as it is satisfied that 
she or he has complied with all the terms and conditions set forth in the final order 
and that such person is capable of safely engaging in the practice of pharmacy. 

(4)The board shall by rule establish guidelines for the disposition of disciplinary 
cases involving specific types of violations. Such guidelines may include minimum 
and maximum fines, periods of supervision or probation, or conditions of probation 
or reissuance of a license. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 13, 15, 24, 25, 30, 34, 62, ch. 80-406; s. 324, ch. 
81-259; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; s. 3, ch. 83-101; s. 37, ch. 83-216; ss. 32, 119, ch. 
83-329; s. 1, ch. 84-364; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 41, ch. 88-1; s. 20, ch. 88-277; 
s. 2, ch. 89-77; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 45, ch. 92- 
149; s. 32, ch. 95-144; s. 244, ch. 97-103; s. 91, ch. 97-264; s. 119, ch. 99-397; s. 
126, ch. 2000-160; s. 33, ch. 2001-277; s. 3, ch. 2004-387; s. 10, ch. 2005-240; s. 
5, ch. 2008-184; s. 11, ch. 2011-141. 

465.0161 Distribution of medicinal drugs without a permit.—An Internet pharmacy 
that distributes a medicinal drug to any person in this state without being permitted 
as a pharmacy under this chapter commits a felony of the second degree, punishable 
as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 
History.—s. 4, ch. 2004-387. 

465.017 Authority to inspect; disposal.— 
(1)Duly authorized agents and employees of the department shall have the power 

to inspect in a lawful manner at all reasonable hours any pharmacy, hospital, clinic, 
wholesale establishment, manufacturer, physician's office, or any other place in the 
state in which drugs and medical supplies are manufactured, packed, packaged, 
made, stored, sold, offered for sale, exposed for sale, or kept for sale for the purpose 
of: 

(a)Determining if any of the provisions of this chapter or any rule promulgated 
under its authority is being violated; 

(b)Securing samples or specimens of any drug or medical supply after paying or 
offering to pay for such sample or specimen; or 

(c)Securing such other evidence as may be needed for prosecution under this 
chapter. 

(2)(a)Except as permitted by this chapter, and chapters 406, 409, 456, 499, and 
893, records maintained in a pharmacy relating to the filling of prescriptions and the 
dispensing of medicinal drugs shall not be furnished to any person other than to the 
patient for whom the drugs were dispensed, or her or his legal representative, or to 
the department pursuant to existing law, or, in the event that the patient is 
incapacitated or unable to request said records, her or his spouse except upon the 
written authorization of such patient. Such records may be furnished in any civil or 



criminal proceeding, upon the issuance of a subpoena from a court of competent 
jurisdiction and proper notice to the patient or her or his legal representative by the 
party seeking such records. 

(b)The board shall adopt rules to establish practice guidelines for pharmacies to 
dispose of records maintained in a pharmacy relating to the filling of prescriptions 
and the dispensing of medicinal drugs. Such rules shall be consistent with the duty to 
preserve the confidentiality of such records in accordance with applicable state and 
federal law. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 1, 2, ch. 85-151; ss. 26, 27, 
ch. 86-256; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 125, ch. 94- 
218; s. 245, ch. 97-103; s. 127, ch. 2000-160; s. 1, ch. 2003-166. 

465.018 Community pharmacies; permits.— 
(1)Any person desiring a permit to operate a community pharmacy shall apply to 

the department. 
(2)If the board office certifies that the application complies with the laws of the 

state and the rules of the board governing pharmacies, the department shall issue 
the permit. No permit shall be issued unless a licensed pharmacist is designated as 
the prescription department manager. 

(3)The board may suspend or revoke the permit of, or may refuse to issue a 

permit to: 
(a)Any person who has been disciplined or who has abandoned a permit or allowed 

a permit to become void after written notice that disciplinary proceedings had been 
or would be brought against the permit; 

(b)Any person who is an officer, director, or person interested directly or indirectly 
in a person or business entity that has had a permit disciplined or abandoned or 
become void after written notice that disciplinary proceedings had been or would be 
brought against the permit; or 

(c)Any person who is or has been an officer of a business entity, or who was 
interested directly or indirectly in a business entity, the permit of which has been 
disciplined or abandoned or become null and void after written notice that 
disciplinary proceedings had been or would be brought against the permit. 

(4)In addition to any other remedies provided by law, the board may deny the 
application or suspend or revoke the license, registration, or certificate of any entity 
regulated or licensed by it if the applicant, licensee, registrant, or licenseholder, or, 
in the case of a corporation, partnership, or other business entity, if any officer, 
director, agent, or managing employee of that business entity or any affiliated 
person, partner, or shareholder having an ownership interest equal to 5 percent or 
greater in that business entity, has failed to pay all outstanding fines, liens, or 
overpayments assessed by final order of the department, unless a repayment plan is 
approved by the department, or has failed to comply with any repayment plan. 

(5)In reviewing any application requesting a change of ownership or a change of 
licensee or registrant, the transferor shall, before board approval of the change, 
repay or make arrangements to repay any amounts owed to the department. If the 
transferor fails to repay or make arrangements to repay the amounts owed to the 
department, the license or registration may not be issued to the transferee until 
repayment or until arrangements for repayment are made. 

(6)Passing an onsite inspection is a prerequisite to the issuance of an initial permit 
or a permit for a change of location. The department must make the inspection 
within 90 days before issuance of the permit. 

(7)Community pharmacies that dispense controlled substances must maintain a 

record of all controlled substance dispensing consistent with the requirements of s. 



893.07 and must make the record available to the department and law enforcement 
agencies upon request. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 3, ch. 
88-172; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 12, ch. 2011-141. 

465.0181 Community pharmacy permit required to dispense Schedule II or 
Schedule III controlled substances.—In order to dispense controlled substances listed 
in Schedule II or Schedule III, as provided in s. 893.03, on or after July 1, 2012, a 

community pharmacy permittee must be permitted pursuant to this chapter, as 
amended by this act, and any rules adopted thereunder. 
History.—s. 13, ch. 2011-141. 

465.019 Institutional pharmacies; permits.— 
(1)Any institution desiring to operate an institutional pharmacy shall apply to the 

department. If the board certifies that the application complies with the laws of the 
state and the rules of the board governing pharmacies, the department shall issue 
the permit. 

(2)The following classes of institutional pharmacies are established: 
(a)"Class I institutional pharmacies" are those institutional pharmacies in which all 

medicinal drugs are administered from individual prescription containers to the 
individual patient and in which medicinal drugs are not dispensed on the premises, 
except that nursing homes licensed under part II of chapter 400 may purchase 
medical oxygen for administration to residents. No medicinal drugs may be 
dispensed in a Class I institutional pharmacy. 

(b)"Class II institutional pharmacies" are those institutional pharmacies which 
employ the services of a registered pharmacist or pharmacists who, in practicing 
institutional pharmacy, shall provide dispensing and consulting services on the 
premises to patients of that institution, for use on the premises of that institution. 
However, an institutional pharmacy located in an area or county included in an 
emergency order or proclamation of a state of emergency declared by the Governor 
may provide dispensing and consulting services to individuals who are not patients of 
the institution. However, a single dose of a medicinal drug may be obtained and 
administered to a patient on a valid physician's drug order under the supervision of a 

physician or charge nurse, consistent with good institutional practice procedures. The 
obtaining and administering of such single dose of a medicinal drug shall be pursuant 
to drug-handling procedures established by a consultant pharmacist. Medicinal drugs 
may be dispensed in a Class II institutional pharmacy, but only in accordance with 
the provisions of this section. 

(c)"Modified Class II institutional pharmacies" are those institutional pharmacies in 
short-term, primary care treatment centers that meet all the requirements for a 

Class II permit, except space and equipment requirements. 
(3)Medicinal drugs shall be stocked, stored, compounded, dispensed, or 

administered in any health care institution only when that institution has secured an 
institutional pharmacy permit from the department. 

(4)Medicinal drugs shall be dispensed in an institutional pharmacy to outpatients 
only when that institution has secured a community pharmacy permit from the 
department. However, an individual licensed to prescribe medicinal drugs in this 
state may dispense up to a 24-hour supply of a medicinal drug to any patient of an 
emergency department of a hospital that operates a Class II institutional pharmacy, 
provided that the physician treating the patient in such hospital's emergency 
department determines that the medicinal drug is warranted and that community 
pharmacy services are not readily accessible, geographically or otherwise, to the 



patient. Such dispensing from the emergency department must be in accordance 
with the procedures of the hospital. For any such patient for whom a medicinal drug 
is warranted for a period to exceed 24 hours, an individual licensed to prescribe such 
drug must dispense a 24-hour supply of such drug to the patient and must provide 
the patient with a prescription for such drug for use after the initial 24-hour period. 
The board may adopt rules necessary to carry out the provisions of this subsection. 

(5)All institutional pharmacies shall be under the professional supervision of a 

consultant pharmacist, and the compounding and dispensing of medicinal drugs shall 
be done only by a licensed pharmacist. Every institutional pharmacy that employs or 
otherwise uses registered pharmacy technicians shall have a written policy and 
procedures manual specifying those duties, tasks, and functions that a registered 
pharmacy technician is allowed to perform. 

(6)In a Class II institutional pharmacy, an institutional formulary system may be 
adopted with approval of the medical staff for the purpose of identifying those 
medicinal drugs and proprietary preparations that may be dispensed by the 
pharmacists employed in such institution. A facility with a Class II institutional permit 
which is operating under the formulary system shall establish policies and procedures 
for the development of the system in accordance with the joint standards of the 
American Hospital Association and American Society of Hospital Pharmacists for the 
utilization of a hospital formulary system, which formulary shall be approved by the 
medical staff. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; s. 2, ch. 83-101; ss. 26, 27, ch. 
86-256; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 29, ch. 93-211; s. 
244, ch. 98-166; s. 36, ch. 99-397; s. 79, ch. 2001-277; s. 6, ch. 2008-216. 

465.0193 Nuclear pharmacy permits.—Any person desiring a permit to operate a 

nuclear pharmacy shall apply to the department. If the board certifies that the 
application complies with applicable law, the department shall issue the permit. No 
permit shall be issued unless a duly licensed and qualified nuclear pharmacist is 
designated as being responsible for activities described in s. 465.0126. The 
permittee shall notify the department within 10 days of any change of the licensed 
pharmacist responsible for the compounding and dispensing of nuclear 
pharmaceuticals. 
History.—ss. 33, 118, ch. 83-329; ss. 15, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 4, ch. 88-172; S. 

59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

465.0196 Special pharmacy permits.—Any person desiring a permit to operate a 

special pharmacy shall apply to the department for a special pharmacy permit. If the 
board certifies that the application complies with the applicable laws and rules of the 
board governing the practice of the profession of pharmacy, the department shall 
issue the permit. A permit may not be issued unless a licensed pharmacist is 
designated to undertake the professional supervision of the compounding and 
dispensing of all drugs dispensed by the pharmacy. The licensed pharmacist shall be 
responsible for maintaining all drug records and for providing for the security of the 
area in the facility in which the compounding, storing, and dispensing of medicinal 
drugs occurs. The permittee shall notify the department within 10 days after any 
change of the licensed pharmacist responsible for such duties. Each permittee that 
employs or otherwise uses registered pharmacy technicians shall have a written 
policy and procedures manual specifying those duties, tasks, and functions that a 

registered pharmacy technician is allowed to perform. 



History.—ss. 34, 118, ch. 83-329; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; S. 59, ch. 91-137; S. 6, 
ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 92, ch. 97-264; s. 122, ch. 99-397; s. 80, ch. 2001- 
277; s. 5, ch. 2004-387; s. 7, ch. 2008-216. 

465.0197 Internet pharmacy permits.— 
(1)Any person desiring a permit to operate an Internet pharmacy shall apply to the 

department for an Internet pharmacy permit. If the board certifies that the 
application complies with the applicable laws and rules of the board governing the 
practice of the profession of pharmacy, the department shall issue the permit. A 
permit may not be issued unless a licensed pharmacist is designated as the 
prescription department manager for dispensing medicinal drugs to persons in this 
state. The licensed pharmacist shall be responsible for maintaining all drug records 
and for providing for the security of the area in the facility in which the 
compounding, storing, and dispensing of medicinal drugs to persons in this state 
occurs. The permittee shall notify the department within 30 days after any change of 
the licensed pharmacist responsible for such duties. A permittee that employs or 
otherwise uses registered pharmacy technicians shall have a written policy and 
procedures manual specifying those duties, tasks, and functions that a registered 
pharmacy technician is allowed to perform. 

(2)An Internet pharmacy must obtain a permit under this section to sell medicinal 
drugs to persons in this state. 

(3)An Internet pharmacy shall provide pharmacy services at a high level of 
protection and competence and shall disclose to the board the following specific 
information: 

(a)That it maintains at all times a valid, unexpired license, permit, or registration 
to operate the pharmacy in compliance with the laws of the state in which the 
dispensing facility is located and from which the medicinal drugs shall be dispensed. 

(b)The location, names, and titles of all principal corporate officers and the 
pharmacist who serves as the prescription department manager for dispensing 
medicinal drugs to persons in this state. This disclosure shall be made within 30 days 
after any change of location, principal corporate officer, or pharmacist serving as the 
prescription department manager for dispensing medicinal drugs to persons in this 
state. 

(c)That it complies with all lawful directions and requests for information from the 
regulatory or licensing agency of all states in which it is licensed as well as with all 
requests for information made by the board pursuant to this section. It shall respond 
directly to all communications from the board concerning emergency circumstances 
arising from errors in the dispensing of medicinal drugs to persons in this state. 

(d)That it maintains its records of medicinal drugs dispensed to patients in this 
state so that the records are readily retrievable from the other business records of 
the pharmacy and from the records of other medicinal drugs dispensed. 

(e)That during its regular hours of operation but not less than 6 days per week, for 
a minimum of 40 hours per week, a toll-free telephone service shall be provided to 
facilitate communication between patients in this state and a pharmacist at the 
pharmacy who has access to the patient's records. This toll-free number must be 
disclosed on the label affixed to each container of dispensed medicinal drugs. 

(4)Notwithstanding s. 465.003(10), for purposes of this section, the Internet 
pharmacy and the pharmacist designated by the Internet pharmacy as the 
prescription department manager or the equivalent must be licensed in the state of 
location in order to dispense into this state. 
History.—s. 6, ch. 2004-387; s. 8, ch. 2008-216. 



465.022 Pharmacies; general requirements; fees.— 
(1)The board shall adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to 

implement the provisions of this chapter. Such rules shall include, but shall not be 
limited to, rules relating to: 

(a)General drug safety measures. 
(b)Minimum standards for the physical facilities of pharmacies. 
(c)Safe storage of floor-stock drugs. 
(d)Functions of a pharmacist in an institutional pharmacy, consistent with the size 

and scope of the pharmacy. 
(e)Procedures for the safe storage and handling of radioactive drugs. 
(f)Procedures for the distribution and disposition of medicinal drugs distributed 

pursuant to s. 499.028. 
(g)Procedures for transfer of prescription files and medicinal drugs upon the 

change of ownership or closing of a pharmacy. 
(h)Minimum equipment which a pharmacy shall at all times possess to fill 

prescriptions properly. 
(i)Procedures for the dispensing of controlled substances to minimize dispensing 

based on fraudulent representations or invalid practitioner-patient relationships. 
(2)A pharmacy permit may be issued only to a natural person who is at least 18 

years of age, to a partnership comprised of at least one natural person and all of 
whose partners are at least 18 years of age, to a governmental agency, or to a 

business entity that is properly registered with the Secretary of State, if required by 
law, and has been issued a federal employer tax identification number. Permits 
issued to business entities may be issued only to entities whose affiliated persons, 
members, partners, officers, directors, and agents, including persons required to be 
fingerprinted under subsection (3), are not less than 18 years of age. 

(3)Any person or business entity, before engaging in the operation of a pharmacy, 
shall file with the board a sworn application on forms provided by the department. 
For purposes of this section, any person required to provide fingerprints under this 
subsection is an affiliated person within the meaning of s. 465.023(1). 

(a)An application for a pharmacy permit must include a set of fingerprints from 
each person having an ownership interest of 5 percent or greater and from any 
person who, directly or indirectly, manages, oversees, or controls the operation of 
the applicant, including officers and members of the board of directors of an 
applicant that is a corporation. The applicant must provide payment in the 
application for the cost of state and national criminal history records checks. 

1.For corporations having more than $100 million of business taxable assets in this 
state, in lieu of these fingerprint requirements, the department shall require the 
prescription department manager or consultant pharmacist of record who will be 
directly involved in the management and operation of the pharmacy to submit a set 
of fingerprints. 

2.A representative of a corporation described in subparagraph 1. satisfies the 
requirement to submit a set of his or her fingerprints if the fingerprints are on file 
with the department or the Agency for Health Care Administration, meet the 
fingerprint specifications for submission by the Department of Law Enforcement, and 
are available to the department. 

(b)The department shall annually submit the fingerprints provided by the applicant 
to the Department of Law Enforcement for a state criminal history records check. 
The Department of Law Enforcement shall annually forward the fingerprints to the 
Federal Bureau of Investigation for a national criminal history records check. The 
department shall report the results of annual criminal history records checks to 
wholesale distributors permitted under chapter 499 for the purposes of s. 
499.0121(15). 



(c)In addition to those documents required by the department or board, each 
applicant having any financial or ownership interest greater than 5 percent in the 
subject of the application must submit a signed affidavit disclosing any financial or 
ownership interest greater than 5 percent in any pharmacy permitted in the past 5 

years, which pharmacy has closed voluntarily or involuntarily, has filed a voluntary 
relinquishment of its permit, has had its permit suspended or revoked, or has had an 
injunction issued against it by a regulatory agency. The affidavit must disclose the 
reason such entity was closed, whether voluntary or involuntary. 

(4)An application for a pharmacy permit must include the applicant's written 
policies and procedures for preventing controlled substance dispensing based on 
fraudulent representations or invalid practitioner-patient relationships. The board 
must review the policies and procedures and may deny a permit if the policies and 
procedures are insufficient to reasonably prevent such dispensing. The department 
may phase in the submission and review of policies and procedures over one 18- 
month period beginning July 1, 2011. 

(5)The department or board shall deny an application for a pharmacy permit if the 
applicant or an affiliated person, partner, officer, director, or prescription department 
manager or consultant pharmacist of record of the applicant: 

(a)Has obtained a permit by misrepresentation or fraud. 
(b)Has attempted to procure, or has procured, a permit for any other person by 

making, or causing to be made, any false representation. 
(c)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, 

regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, 
or the ability to practice, the profession of pharmacy. 

(d)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, 
regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to health care 
fraud. 

(e)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, 
regardless of adjudication, a felony under chapter 409, chapter 817, or chapter 893, 
or a similar felony offense committed in another state or jurisdiction, since July 1, 
2009. 

(f)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, 
regardless of adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 or 42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395-1396 since July 1, 2009. 

(g)Has been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid program pursuant to s. 
409.913, unless the applicant has been in good standing with the Florida Medicaid 
program for the most recent 5-year period. 

(h)Has been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established 
by the state, from any other state Medicaid program, unless the applicant has been 
in good standing with a state Medicaid program for the most recent 5-year period 
and the termination occurred at least 20 years before the date of the application. 

(i)Is currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services Office of Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities. 

(j)Has dispensed any medicinal drug based upon a communication that purports to 
be a prescription as defined by s. 465.003(14) or s. 893.02 when the pharmacist 
knows or has reason to believe that the purported prescription is not based upon a 

valid practitioner-patient relationship that includes a documented patient evaluation, 
including history and a physical examination adequate to establish the diagnosis for 
which any drug is prescribed and any other requirement established by board rule 
under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 461, chapter 463, chapter 464, or chapter 
466. 



For felonies in which the defendant entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere in an 
agreement with the court to enter a pretrial intervention or drug diversion program, the 
department shall deny the application if upon final resolution of the case the licensee has 
failed to successfully complete the program. 

(6)The department or board may deny an application for a pharmacy permit if the 
applicant or an affiliated person, partner, officer, director, or prescription department 
manager or consultant pharmacist of record of the applicant has violated or failed to 
comply with any provision of this chapter; chapter 499, the Florida Drug and 
Cosmetic Act; chapter 893; 21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392, the Federal Food, Drug, and 
Cosmetic Act; 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 et seq., the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention 
and Control Act; or any rules or regulations promulgated thereunder unless the 
violation or noncompliance is technical. 

(7)After the application has been filed with the board and the permit fee provided 
in this section has been received, the board shall cause the application to be fully 
investigated, both as to the qualifications of the applicant and the prescription 
department manager or consultant pharmacist designated to be in charge and as to 
the premises and location described in the application. 

(8)The Board of Pharmacy shall have the authority to determine whether a bona 
fide transfer of ownership is present and that the sale of a pharmacy is not being 
accomplished for the purpose of avoiding an administrative prosecution. 

(9)Upon the completion of the investigation of an application, the board shall 
approve or deny the application. If approved, the permit shall be issued by the 
department. 

(10)A permittee must notify the department, on a form approved by the board, 
within 10 days after any change in prescription department manager or consultant 
pharmacist of record. 

(11)A permittee must notify the department of the identity of the prescription 
department manager within 10 days after employment. The prescription department 
manager must comply with the following requirements: 

(a)The prescription department manager of a permittee must obtain and maintain 
all drug records required by any state or federal law to be obtained by a pharmacy, 
including, but not limited to, records required by or under this chapter, chapter 499, 
or chapter 893. The prescription department manager must ensure the permittee's 
compliance with all rules adopted under those chapters as they relate to the practice 
of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of prescription drugs. 

(b)The prescription department manager must ensure the security of the 
prescription department. The prescription department manager must notify the 
board of any theft or significant loss of any controlled substances within 1 business 
day after discovery of the theft or loss. 

(c)A registered pharmacist may not serve as the prescription department manager 
in more than one location unless approved by the board. 

(12)The board shall adopt rules that require the keeping of such records of 
prescription drugs as are necessary for the protection of public health, safety, and 
welfare. 

(a)All required records documenting prescription drug distributions shall be readily 
available or immediately retrievable during an inspection by the department. 

(b)The records must be maintained for 4 years after the creation or receipt of the 
record, whichever is later. 

(13)Permits issued by the department are not transferable. 
(14)The board shall set the fees for the following: 
(a)Initial permit fee not to exceed $250. 
(b)Biennial permit renewal not to exceed $250. 



(c)Delinquent fee not to exceed $100. 
(d)Change of location fee not to exceed $100. 

History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; s. 36, ch. 82-225; ss. 16, 26, 
27, ch. 86-256; s. 6, ch. 88-172; s. 14, ch. 88-205; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91- 
156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 127, ch. 98-200; s. 27, ch. 2009-223; s. 14, ch. 2011-141. 

465.023 Pharmacy permittee; disciplinary action.— 
(1)The department or the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any 

pharmacy permittee, and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any 
pharmacy permittee if the permittee, or any affiliated person, partner, officer, 
director, or agent of the permittee, including a person fingerprinted under s. 
465.022(3), has: 

(a)Obtained a permit by misrepresentation or fraud or through an error of the 
department or the board; 

(b)Attempted to procure, or has procured, a permit for any other person by 
making, or causing to be made, any false representation; 

(c)Violated any of the requirements of this chapter or any of the rules of the Board 
of Pharmacy; of chapter 499, known as the "Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act"; of 21 
U.S.C. ss. 301-392, known as the "Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act"; of 21 
U.S.C. ss. 821 et seq., known as the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and 
Control Act; or of chapter 893; 

(d)Been convicted or found guilty, regardless of adjudication, of a felony or any 
other crime involving moral turpitude in any of the courts of this state, of any other 
state, or of the United States; 

(e)Been convicted or disciplined by a regulatory agency of the Federal Government 
or a regulatory agency of another state for any offense that would constitute a 

violation of this chapter; 
(f)Been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless 

of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or the 
ability to practice, the profession of pharmacy; 

(g)Been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless 
of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to health care fraud; or 

(h)Dispensed any medicinal drug based upon a communication that purports to be 
a prescription as defined by s. 465.003(14) or s. 893.02 when the pharmacist knows 
or has reason to believe that the purported prescription is not based upon a valid 
practitioner-patient relationship that includes a documented patient evaluation, 
including history and a physical examination adequate to establish the diagnosis for 
which any drug is prescribed and any other requirement established by board rule 
under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 461, chapter 463, chapter 464, or chapter 
466. 

(2)If a pharmacy permit is revoked or suspended, the owner, manager, or 
proprietor shall cease to operate the establishment as a pharmacy as of the effective 
date of such suspension or revocation. In the event of such revocation or 
suspension, the owner, manager, or proprietor shall remove from the premises all 
signs and symbols identifying the premises as a pharmacy. The period of such 
suspension shall be prescribed by the Board of Pharmacy, but in no case shall it 
exceed 1 year. In the event that the permit is revoked, the person owning or 
operating the establishment shall not be entitled to make application for a permit to 
operate a pharmacy for a period of 1 year from the date of such revocation. Upon 
the effective date of such revocation, the permittee shall advise the Board of 
Pharmacy of the disposition of the medicinal drugs located on the premises. Such 



disposition shall be subject to continuing supervision and approval by the Board of 
Pharmacy. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; s. 38, ch. 83-216; ss. 35, 119, 
ch. 83-329; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91- 
429; s. 33, ch. 95-144; s. 7, ch. 2004-387; s. 6, ch. 2008-184; s. 28, ch. 2009-223. 

465.0235 Automated pharmacy systems used by long-term care facilities, hospices, 
or state correctional institutions.— 

(1)A pharmacy may provide pharmacy services to a long-term care facility or 
hospice licensed under chapter 400 or chapter 429 or a state correctional institution 
operated under chapter 944 through the use of an automated pharmacy system that 
need not be located at the same location as the pharmacy. 

(2)Medicinal drugs stored in bulk or unit of use in an automated pharmacy system 
servicing a long-term care facility, hospice, or correctional institution are part of the 
inventory of the pharmacy providing pharmacy services to that facility, hospice, or 
institution, and drugs delivered by the automated pharmacy system are considered 
to have been dispensed by that pharmacy. 

(3)The operation of an automated pharmacy system must be under the supervision 
of a Florida-licensed pharmacist. To qualify as a supervisor for an automated 
pharmacy system, the pharmacist need not be physically present at the site of the 
automated pharmacy system and may supervise the system electronically. The 
Florida-licensed pharmacist shall be required to develop and implement policies and 
procedures designed to verify that the medicinal drugs delivered by the automated 
dispensing system are accurate and valid and that the machine is properly 
restocked. 

(4)The Legislature does not intend this section to limit the current practice of 
pharmacy in this state. This section is intended to allow automated pharmacy 
systems to enhance the ability of a pharmacist to provide pharmacy services in 
locations that do not employ a full-time pharmacist. This section does not limit or 
replace the use of a consultant pharmacist. 

(5)The board shall adopt rules governing the use of an automated pharmacy 
system by January 1, 2005, which must specify: 

(a)Recordkeeping requirements; 
(b)Security requirements; and 
(c)Labeling requirements that permit the use of unit-dose medications if the 

facility, hospice, or institution maintains medication-administration records that 
include directions for use of the medication and the automated pharmacy system 
identifies: 

1.The dispensing pharmacy; 
2.The prescription number; 
3.The name of the patient; and 
4.The name of the prescribing practitioner. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 2004-25; s. 92, ch. 2006-197. 
465.O24Promoting sale of certain drugs prohibited.— 
(1)It is declared that the unrestricted use of certain controlled substances, causing 

abnormal reactions that may interfere with the user's physical reflexes and 
judgments, may create hazardous circumstances which may cause accidents to the 
user and to others, thereby affecting the public health, safety, and welfare. It is 
further declared to be in the public interest to limit the means of promoting the sale 
and use of these drugs. All provisions of this section shall be liberally construed to 
carry out these objectives and purposes. 





(5)Each community pharmacy shall establish a formulary of generic and brand 
name drug products which, if selected as the drug product of choice, would not pose 
a threat to the health and safety of patients receiving prescription medication. In 
compiling the list of generic and brand name drug products for inclusion in the 
formulary, the pharmacist shall rely on drug product research, testing, information, 
and formularies compiled by other pharmacies, by states, by the United States 
Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, by the United States Department of 
Health and Human Services, or by any other source which the pharmacist deems 
reliable. Each community pharmacy shall make such formulary available to the 
public, the Board of Pharmacy, or any physician requesting same. This formulary 
shall be revised following each addition, deletion, or modification of said formulary. 

(6)The Board of Pharmacy and the Board of Medicine shall establish by rule a 

formulary of generic drug type and brand name drug products which are determined 
by the boards to demonstrate clinically significant biological or therapeutic 
inequivalence and which, if substituted, would pose a threat to the health and safety 
of patients receiving prescription medication. 

(a)The formulary may be added to or deleted from as the Board of Pharmacy and 
the Board of Medicine deem appropriate. Any person who requests any inclusion, 
addition, or deletion of a generic drug type or brand name drug product to the 
formulary shall have the burden of proof to show cause why such inclusion, addition, 
or deletion should be made. 

(b)Upon adoption of the formulary required by this subsection, and upon each 
addition, deletion, or modification to the formulary, the Board of Pharmacy shall mail 
a copy to each manager of the prescription department of each community 
pharmacy licensed by the state, each nonresident pharmacy registered in the state, 
and each board regulating practitioners licensed by the laws of the state to prescribe 
drugs shall incorporate such formulary into its rules. No pharmacist shall substitute a 

generically equivalent drug product for a prescribed brand name drug product if the 
brand name drug product or the generic drug type drug product is included in the 
said formulary. 

(7)Every community pharmacy shall display in a prominent place that is in clear 
and unobstructed public view, at or near the place where prescriptions are 
dispensed, a sign in block letters not less than 1 inch in height which shall read: 
"CONSULT YOUR PHARMACIST CONCERNING THE AVAILABILITY OF A LESS 
EXPENSIVE GENERICALLY EQUIVALENT DRUG AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF FLORIDA 
LAW." 

(8)The standard of care to be applied to the acts of any pharmacist performing 
professional services in compliance with this section when a substitution is made by 
said pharmacist shall be that which would apply to the performance of professional 
services in the dispensing of a prescription order prescribing a drug by generic name. 
In no event when a pharmacist substitutes a drug shall the prescriber be liable in any 
action for loss, damage, injury, or death to any person occasioned by or arising from 
the use or nonuse of the substituted drug, unless the original drug was incorrectly 
prescribed. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; s. 325, ch. 81-259; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 26, 27, 
ch. 86-256; s. 4, ch. 89-218; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 20, ch. 91-220; 
s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 246, ch. 97-103; s. 4, ch. 2006-271. 

465.0251 Generic drugs; removal from formulary under specified circumstances.— 
(1)The Board of Pharmacy and the Board of Medicine shall remove any generic 

named drug product from the formulary established by s. 465.025(6), if every 
commercially marketed equivalent of that drug product is "A" rated as 



therapeutically equivalent to a reference listed drug or is a reference listed drug as 
referred to in "Approved Drug Products with Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluations" 
(Orange Book) published by the United States Food and Drug Administration. 

(2)Nothing in this act shall alter or amend s. 465.025 as to existing law providing 
for the authority of physicians to prohibit generic drug substitution by writing 
"medically necessary" on the prescription. 
History.—ss. 1, 2, ch. 2001-146. 

465.0255 Expiration date of medicinal drugs; display; related use and storage 
instructions.— 

(1)The manufacturer, repackager, or other distributor of any medicinal drug shall 
display the expiration date of each drug in a readable fashion on the container and 
on its packaging. The term "readable" means conspicuous and bold. 

(2)Each pharmacist for a community pharmacy dispensing medicinal drugs and 
each practitioner dispensing medicinal drugs on an outpatient basis shall display on 
the outside of the container of each medicinal drug dispensed, or in other written 
form delivered to the purchaser: 

(a)The expiration date when provided by the manufacturer, repackager, or other 
distributor of the drug; or 

(b)An earlier beyond-use date for expiration, which may be up to 1 year after the 
date of dispensing. 

The dispensing pharmacist or practitioner must provide information concerning the expiration 
date to the purchaser upon request and must provide appropriate instructions regarding the 
proper use and storage of the drug. 

(3)This section does not impose liability on the dispensing pharmacist or 
practitioner for damages related to, or caused by, a medicinal drug that loses its 
effectiveness prior to the expiration date displayed by the dispensing pharmacist or 
practitioner. 

(4)The provisions of this section are intended to notify the patient receiving a 

medicinal drug of the information required by this section, and the dispensing 
pharmacist or practitioner shall not be liable for the patient's failure to heed such 
notice or to follow the instructions for storage. 
History.—ss. 1, 2, ch. 93-44; s. 8, ch. 2004-387. 

465.026 Filling of certain prescriptions.—Nothing contained in this chapter shall be 
construed to prohibit a pharmacist licensed in this state from filling or refilling a valid 
prescription which is on file in a pharmacy located in this state or in another state 
and has been transferred from one pharmacy to another by any means, including 
any electronic means, under the following conditions: 

(1)Prior to dispensing any transferred prescription, the dispensing pharmacist 
must, either verbally or by any electronic means, do all of the following: 

(a)Advise the patient that the prescription on file at the other pharmacy must be 
canceled before it may be filled or refilled. 

(b)Determine that the prescription is valid and on file at the other pharmacy and 
that the prescription may be filled or refilled, as requested, in accordance with the 
prescriber's intent expressed on the prescription. 

(c)Notify the pharmacist or pharmacy where the prescription is on file that the 
prescription must be canceled. 

(d)Record in writing, or by any electronic means, the prescription order, the name 
of the pharmacy at which the prescription was on file, the prescription number, the 



name of the drug and the original amount dispensed, the date of original dispensing, 
and the number of remaining authorized refills. 

(e)Obtain the consent of the prescriber to the refilling of the prescription when the 
prescription, in the dispensing pharmacist's professional judgment, so requires. Any 
interference with the professional judgment of the dispensing pharmacist by any 
pharmacist or pharmacy permittee, or its agents or employees, shall be grounds for 
discipline. 

(2)Upon receipt of a prescription transfer request, if the pharmacist is satisfied in 
her or his professional judgment that the request is valid, or if the request has been 
validated by any electronic means, the pharmacist or pharmacy must do all of the 
following: 

(a)Transfer the information required by paragraph (1)(d) accurately and 
completely. 

(b)Record on the prescription, or by any electronic means, the requesting 
pharmacy and pharmacist and the date of request. 

(c)Cancel the prescription on file by electronic means or by recording the word 
"void" on the prescription record. No further prescription information shall be given 
or medication dispensed pursuant to the original prescription. 

(3)If a transferred prescription is not dispensed within a reasonable time, the 
pharmacist shall, by any means, so notify the transferring pharmacy. Such notice 
shall serve to revalidate the canceled prescription. The pharmacist who has served 
such notice shall then cancel the prescription in the same manner as set forth in 
paragraph (2)(c). 

(4)In the case of a prescription to be transferred from or to a pharmacy located in 
another state, it shall be the responsibility of the pharmacist or pharmacy located in 
the State of Florida to verify, whether by electronic means or otherwise, that the 
person or entity involved in the transfer is a licensed pharmacist or pharmacy in the 
other state. 

(5)Electronic transfers of prescriptions are permitted regardless of whether the 
transferor or transferee pharmacy is open for business. 

(6)The transfer of a prescription for medicinal drugs listed in Schedules III, IV, and 
V appearing in chapter 893 for the purpose of refill dispensing is permissible, subject 
to the requirements of this section and federal law. Compliance with federal law shall 
be deemed compliance with the requirements of this section. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; s. 1, ch. 85-71; ss. 17, 26, 27, 
ch. 86-256; s. 1, ch. 90-2; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 
247, ch. 97-103; s. 93, ch. 97-264; s. 4, ch. 2004-25; s. 9, ch. 2004-387; s. 1, ch. 
2006-243. 

465.0265 Centralized prescription filling.— 
(1)A pharmacy licensed under this chapter may perform centralized prescription 

filling for another pharmacy, provided that the pharmacies have the same owner or 
have a written contract specifying the services to be provided by each pharmacy, the 
responsibilities of each pharmacy, and the manner in which the pharmacies will 
comply with federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. 

(2)Each pharmacy performing or contracting for the performance of centralized 
prescription filling pursuant to this section must maintain a policy and procedures 
manual, which shall be made available to the board or its agent upon request. The 
policy and procedures manual shall include the following information: 

(a)A description of how each pharmacy will comply with federal and state laws, 
rules, and regulations. 



(b)The procedure for maintaining appropriate records to identify the pharmacist 
responsible for dispensing the prescription and counseling the patient. 

(c)The procedure for tracking the prescription during each stage of the filling and 
dispensing process. 

(d)The procedure for identifying on the prescription label all pharmacies involved in 
filling and dispensing the prescription. 

(e)The policy and procedure for providing adequate security to protect the 
confidentiality and integrity of patient information. 

(f)The procedure to be used by the pharmacy in implementing and operating a 

quality assurance program designed to objectively and systematically monitor, 
evaluate, and improve the quality and appropriateness of patient care. 

(3)The filling, delivery, and return of a prescription by one pharmacy for another 
pursuant to this section shall not be construed as the filling of a transferred 
prescription as set forth in s. 465.026 or as a wholesale distribution as set forth in s. 
499.003(54). 

(4)The board shall adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 necessary to 
implement this section. 
History.—s. 2, ch. 2002-182; s. 40, ch. 2008-207; s. 38, ch. 2010-161. 

465.0266 Common database.—Nothing contained in this chapter shall be construed 
to prohibit the dispensing by a pharmacist licensed in this state or another state of a 

prescription contained in a common database, and such dispensing shall not 
constitute a transfer as defined in s. 465.026(1)-(6), provided that the following 
conditions are met: 

(1)All pharmacies involved in the transactions pursuant to which the prescription is 
dispensed are under common ownership and utilize a common database. 

(2)All pharmacies involved in the transactions pursuant to which the prescription is 
dispensed and all pharmacists engaging in dispensing functions are properly 
licensed, permitted, or registered in this state or another state. 

(3)The common database maintains a record of all pharmacists involved in the 
process of dispensing a prescription. 

(4)The owner of the common database maintains a policy and procedures manual 
that governs its participating pharmacies, pharmacists, and pharmacy employees 
and that is available to the board or its agent upon request. The policy and 
procedures manual shall include the following information: 

(a)A best practices model detailing how each pharmacy and each pharmacist 
accessing the common database will comply with applicable federal and state laws, 
rules, and regulations. 

(b)The procedure for maintaining appropriate records for regulatory oversight for 
tracking a prescription during each stage of the filling and dispensing process, 
identifying the pharmacists involved in filling and dispensing the prescription and 
counseling the patient, and responding to any requests for information made by the 
board under s. 465.0156. 

(c)The policy and procedure for providing adequate security to protect the 
confidentiality and integrity of patient information. 

(d)A quality assurance program designed to objectively and systematically 
monitor, evaluate, and improve the quality and appropriateness of patient care 
through the use of the common database. 

Any pharmacist dispensing a prescription has at all times the right and obligation to exercise 
his or her independent professional judgment. Notwithstanding other provisions in this section, 
no pharmacist licensed in this state participating in the dispensing of a prescription pursuant to 



this section shalL be responsible for the acts and omissions of another person participating in 
the dispensing process provided such person is not under the direct supervision and control of 
the pharmacist Licensed in this state. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 2006-243. 

465.027 Exceptions.—This chapter shall not be construed to prohibit the sale of 
home remedies or preparations commonly known as patents or proprietary 
preparations, when such are sold only in original or unbroken packages, nor shall 
this chapter be construed to prevent businesses from engaging in the sale of 
sundries or patents or proprietary preparations. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 18, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; S. 

59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

465.0275 Emergency prescription refill.—In the event a pharmacist receives a 

request for a prescription refill and the pharmacist is unable to readily obtain refill 
authorization from the prescriber, the pharmacist may dispense a one-time 
emergency refill of up to a 72-hour supply of the prescribed medication, with the 
exception of those areas or counties included in an emergency order or proclamation 
of a state of emergency declared by the Governor, in which the executive order may 
authorize the pharmacist to dispense up to a 30-day supply, providing that: 

(1)The prescription is not for a medicinal drug listed in Schedule II appearing in 
chapter 893. 

(2)The medication is essential to the maintenance of life or to the continuation of 
therapy in a chronic condition. 

(3)In the pharmacist's professional judgment, the interruption of therapy might 
reasonably produce undesirable health consequences or may cause physical or 
mental discomfort. 

(4)The dispensing pharmacist creates a written order containing all of the 
prescription information required by this chapter and chapters 499 and 893 and 
signs that order. 

(5)The dispensing pharmacist notifies the prescriber of the emergency dispensing 
within a reasonable time after such dispensing. 
History.—ss. 19, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 3, ch. 89-77; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91- 
156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 30, ch. 93-211. 

465.0276 Dispensing practitioner.— 
(1)(a)A person may not dispense medicinal drugs unless licensed as a pharmacist 

or otherwise authorized under this chapter to do so, except that a practitioner 
authorized by law to prescribe drugs may dispense such drugs to her or his patients 
in the regular course of her or his practice in compliance with this section. 

(b)A practitioner registered under this section may not dispense a controlled 
substance listed in Schedule II or Schedule III as provided in s. 893.03. This 
paragraph does not apply to: 

1.The dispensing of complimentary packages of medicinal drugs which are labeled 
as a drug sample or complimentary drug as defined in s. 499.028 to the 
practitioner's own patients in the regular course of her or his practice without the 
payment of a fee or remuneration of any kind, whether direct or indirect, as provided 
in subsection (5). 

2.The dispensing of controlled substances in the health care system of the 
Department of Corrections. 



a controlled substance or 
the a 

to a 

allow for a or 
Schedule III more than 14 days after the performance of the surgical procedure. For 
purposes of this subparagraph, the term "surgical procedure" means any procedure 
in any setting which involves, or reasonably should involve: 

a.Perioperative medication and sedation that allows the patient to tolerate 
unpleasant procedures while maintaining adequate cardiorespiratory function and the 
ability to respond purposefully to verbal or tactile stimulation and makes intra- and 
postoperative monitoring necessary; or 

b.The use of general anesthesia or major conduction anesthesia and preoperative 
sedation. 

4.The dispensing of a controlled substance listed in Schedule II or Schedule III 
pursuant to an approved clinical trial. For purposes of this subparagraph, the term 
"approved clinical trial" means a clinical research study or clinical investigation that, 
in whole or in part, is state or federally funded or is conducted under an 
investigational new drug application that is reviewed by the United States Food and 
Drug Administration. 

5.The dispensing of methadone in a facility licensed under s. 397.427 where 
medication-assisted treatment for opiate addiction is provided. 

6.The dispensing of a controlled substance listed in Schedule II or Schedule III to a 

patient of a facility licensed under part IV of chapter 400. 
(2)A practitioner who dispenses medicinal drugs for human consumption for fee or 

remuneration of any kind, whether direct or indirect, must: 
(a)Register with her or his professional licensing board as a dispensing practitioner 

and pay a fee not to exceed $100 at the time of such registration and upon each 
renewal of her or his license. Each appropriate board shall establish such fee by rule. 

(b)Comply with and be subject to all laws and rules applicable to pharmacists and 
pharmacies, including, but not limited to, this chapter and chapters 499 and 893 and 
all federal laws and federal regulations. 

(c)Before dispensing any drug, give the patient a written prescription and orally or 
in writing advise the patient that the prescription may be filled in the practitioner's 
office or at any pharmacy. 

(3)The department shall inspect any facility where a practitioner dispenses 
medicinal drugs pursuant to subsection (2) in the same manner and with the same 
frequency as it inspects pharmacies for the purpose of determining whether the 
practitioner is in compliance with all statutes and rules applicable to her or his 
dispensing practice. 

(4)The registration of any practitioner who has been found by her or his respective 
board to have dispensed medicinal drugs in violation of this chapter shall be subject 
to suspension or revocation. 

(5)A practitioner who confines her or his activities to the dispensing of 
complimentary packages of medicinal drugs to the practitioner's own patients in the 
regular course of her or his practice, without the payment of fee or remuneration of 
any kind, whether direct or indirect, and who herself or himself dispenses such drugs 
is not required to register pursuant to this section. The practitioner must dispense 
such drugs in the manufacturer's labeled package with the practitioner's name, 
patient's name, and date dispensed, or, if such drugs are not dispensed in the 
manufacturer's labeled package, they must be dispensed in a container which bears 
the following information: 

(a)Practitioner's name; 
(b)Patient's name; 





chosen by the committee. The committee shall establish a formulary of medicinal 
drug products and dispensing procedures which shall be used by a pharmacist when 
ordering and dispensing such drug products to the public. Dispensing procedures 
may include matters related to reception of patient, description of his or her 
condition, patient interview, patient physician referral, product selection, and 
dispensing and use limitations. In developing the formulary of medicinal drug 
products, the committee may include products falling within the following categories: 

(a)Any medicinal drug of single or multiple active ingredients in any strengths 
when such active ingredients have been approved individually or in combination for 
over-the-counter sale by the United States Food and Drug Administration. 

(b)Any medicinal drug recommended by the United States Food and Drug 
Administration Advisory Panel for transfer to over-the-counter status pending 
approval by the United States Food and Drug Administration. 

(c)Any medicinal drug containing any antihistamine or decongestant as a single 
active ingredient or in combination. 

(d)Any medicinal drug containing fluoride in any strength. 
(e)Any medicinal drug containing lindane in any strength. 
(f)Any over-the-counter proprietary drug under federal law that has been approved 

for reimbursement by the Florida Medicaid Program. 
(g)Any topical anti-infectives excluding eye and ear topical anti-infectives. 

However, any drug which is sold as an over-the-counter proprietary drug under federal Law 

shall not be included in the formulary or otherwise affected by this section. 

(2)The Board of Pharmacy, the Board of Medicine, and the Board of Osteopathic 
Medicine shall adopt by rule a formulary of medicinal drugs and dispensing 
procedures as established by the committee. A pharmacist may order and dispense a 

product from the formulary pursuant to the established dispensing procedure, as 
adopted by the boards, for each drug in conjunction with its inclusion in the 
formulary. Any drug product ordered by a pharmacist shall be selected and 
dispensed only by the pharmacist so ordering, and said order shall not be refilled, 
nor shall another medicinal drug be ordered for the same condition unless such act is 
consistent with dispensing procedures established by the committee. Appropriate 
referral to another health care provider is indicated under such circumstances. On 
each occasion of such dispensing, the pharmacist shall create and maintain a 

prescription record in the form required by law. 
(3)Affixed to the container containing a medicinal drug dispensed pursuant to this 

section shall be a label bearing the following information: 
(a)The name of the pharmacist ordering the medication. 
(b)The name and address of the pharmacy from which the medication was 

dispensed. 
(c)The date of dispensing. 
(d)The order number or other identification adequate to readily identify the order. 
(e)The name of the patient for whom the medicinal drug was ordered. 
(f)The directions for use of the medicinal drug ordered. 
(g)A clear, concise statement that the order may not be refilled. 
(4)Any pharmacist performing the services authorized by this section shall be 

eligible for reimbursement by third party prescription programs when so provided by 
contract or when otherwise provided by such program. 

(5)Any person ordering or dispensing medicinal drugs in violation of this section 
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree, and such violation shall be 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 





(3)This section does not apply to investigative audits conducted by the Medicaid 
Fraud Control Unit of the Department of Legal Affairs. 

(4)This section does not apply to any investigative audit conducted by the Agency 
for Health Care Administration when the agency has reliable evidence that the claim 
that is the subject of the audit involves fraud, willful misrepresentation, or abuse 
under the Medicaid program. 
History.—s. 1, ch. 2003-277; s. 11, ch. 2004-344. 

465.189 Administration of vaccines and epinephrine autoinjection.— 
(1)In accordance with guidelines of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

for each recommended immunization or vaccine, a pharmacist may administer the 
following vaccines to an adult within the framework of an established protocol under 
a supervising physician licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459: 

(a)Influenza vaccine. 
(b)Pneumococcal vaccine. 
(2)In accordance with guidelines of the Centers for Disease Control and 

Prevention, a pharmacist may administer the shingles vaccine within the framework 
of an established protocol and pursuant to a written or electronic prescription issued 
to the patient by a physician licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459. 

(3)In order to address any unforeseen allergic reaction, a pharmacist may 
administer epinephrine using an autoinjector delivery system within the framework 
of an established protocol under a supervising physician licensed under chapter 458 
or chapter 459. 

(4)A pharmacist may not enter into a protocol unless he or she maintains at least 
$200,000 of professional liability insurance and has completed training in 
administering vaccines authorized under this section. 

(5)A pharmacist administering vaccines under this section shall maintain and make 
available patient records using the same standards for confidentiality and 
maintenance of such records as those that are imposed on health care practitioners 
under s. 456.057. These records shall be maintained for a minimum of 5 years. 

(6)The decision by a supervising physician licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 
459 to enter into a protocol under this section is a professional decision on the part 
of the practitioner, and a person may not interfere with a physician's decision as to 
entering into such a protocol. A pharmacist may not enter into a protocol that is to 
be performed while acting as an employee without the written approval of the owner 
of the pharmacy. Pharmacists shall forward vaccination records to the department 
for inclusion in the state registry of immunization information. 

(7)Any pharmacist seeking to administer vaccines to adults under this section must 
be certified to administer such vaccines pursuant to a certification program approved 
by the Board of Pharmacy in consultation with the Board of Medicine and the Board 
of Osteopathic Medicine. The certification program shall, at a minimum, require that 
the pharmacist attend at least 20 hours of continuing education classes approved by 
the board. The program shall have a curriculum of instruction concerning the safe 
and effective administration of such vaccines, including, but not limited to, potential 
allergic reactions to such vaccines. 

(8)The written protocol between the pharmacist and supervising physician under 
this section must include particular terms and conditions imposed by the supervising 
physician upon the pharmacist relating to the administration of vaccines by the 
pharmacist pursuant to this section. The written protocol shall include, at a 

minimum, specific categories and conditions among patients for whom the 
supervising physician authorizes the pharmacist to administer such vaccines. The 
terms, scope, and conditions set forth in the written protocol between the pharmacist 



and the supervising physician must be appropriate to the pharmacist's training and 
certification for administering such vaccines. Pharmacists who have been delegated 
the authority to administer vaccines under this section by the supervising physician 
under the protocol shall provide evidence of current certification by the Board of 
Pharmacy to the supervising physician. A supervising physician shall review the 
administration of such vaccines by the pharmacist pursuant to the written protocol 
between them, and this review shall take place as outlined in the written protocol. 
The process and schedule for the review shall be outlined in the written protocol 
between the pharmacist and the supervising physician. 

(9)The pharmacist shall submit to the Board of Pharmacy a copy of his or her 
protocol or written agreement to administer vaccines under this section. 
History.—s. 3, ch. 2007-152; s. 1, ch. 2012-60. 

465.1901 Practice of orthotics and pedorthics.—The provisions of chapter 468 
relating to orthotics or pedorthics do not apply to any licensed pharmacist or to any 
person acting under the supervision of a licensed pharmacist. The practice of 
orthotics or pedorthics by a pharmacist or any of the pharmacist's employees acting 
under the supervision of a pharmacist shall be construed to be within the meaning of 
the term "practice of the profession of pharmacy" as set forth in s. 465.003(13), and 
shall be subject to regulation in the same manner as any other pharmacy practice. 
The Board of Pharmacy shall develop rules regarding the practice of orthotics and 
pedorthics by a pharmacist. Any pharmacist or person under the supervision of a 

pharmacist engaged in the practice of orthotics or pedorthics is not precluded from 
continuing that practice pending adoption of these rules. 
History.—s. 3, ch. 2009-202. 



Title XLVI ChaDter 893 View Entire ChaDter 
CRIMES DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION AND CONTROL 

CHAPTER 893 

DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION AND CONTROL 

893.01 Short title. 

893 .O2Definitions. 

893.O3Standards and schedules. 

893.0301 Death resulting from apparent drug overdose; reporting requirements. 

893.031 Industrial exceptions to controlled substance scheduling. 

893.O33Listed chemicals. 

893.O35Control of new substances; findings of fact; delegation of authority to Attorney General 

to control substances by rule. 

893.O355Control of scheduled substances; delegation of authority to Attorney General to 

reschedule substance, or delete substance, by rule. 

893.O356Control of new substances; findings of fact; "controlled substance analog" defined. 

893.O4Pharmacist and practitioner. 

893.O5Practitioners and persons administering controlled substances in their absence. 

893 .O55Prescription drug monitoring program. 

893.0551 Public records exemption for the prescription drug monitoring program. 

893.O6Distribution of controlled substances; order forms; labeling and packaging requirements. 

893.O65Counterfeit-resistant prescription blanks for controlled substances listed in Schedule II, 

Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V. 

893.O7Records. 

893 .O8Exceptions. 

893 .O9Enforcement. 

893.l0Burden of proof; photograph or video recording of evidence. 

893.101 Legislative findings and intent. 

893.loslesting and destruction of seized substances. 

893.llSuspension, revocation, and reinstatement of business and professional licenses. 

893.1 2Contraband; seizure, forfeiture, sale. 

893.1 3Prohibited acts; penalties. 

893.l3slrafficking; mandatory sentences; suspension or reduction of sentences; conspiracy to 

engage in trafficking. 

893.l35lOwnership, lease, rental, or possession for trafficking in or manufacturing a controlled 

substance. 

893.l38Local administrative action to abate drug-related, prostitution-related, or stolen- 



property-related public nuisances and criminal gang activity. 

893.145"Drug paraphernalia" defined. 

893.l46Determination of paraphernalia. 

893.l47Use, possession, manufacture, delivery, transportation, or advertisement of drug 

paraphernalia. 

893.l49Unlawful possession of listed chemical. 

893.l495Retail sale of ephedrine and related compounds. 

893.1 5Rehabilitation. 

893.l65County alcohol and other drug abuse treatment or education trust funds. 

893.2OContinuing criminal enterprise. 

893.21 Drug-related overdoses; medical assistance; immunity from prosecution. 

893.OlShort title.—This chapter shall be cited and known as the "Florida Comprehensive Drug 

Abuse Prevention and Control Act." 

History.—s. 1, ch. 73-331. 

893.O2Definitions.—The following words and phrases as used in this chapter shall have the 

following meanings, unless the context otherwise requires: 

(1 )"Administer" means the direct application of a controlled substance, whether by injection, 

inhalation, ingestion, or any other means, to the body of a person or animal. 

(2)"Analog" or "chemical analog" means a structural derivative of a parent compound that is a 

controlled substance. 

(3)"Cannabis" means all parts of any plant of the genus Cannabis, whether growing or not; the 

seeds thereof; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, manufacture, 

salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant or its seeds or resin. 

(4)"Controlled substance" means any substance named or described in Schedules I-V of s. 

893.03. Laws controlling the manufacture, distribution, preparation, dispensing, or administration 

of such substances are drug abuse laws. 

(5)"Cultivating" means the preparation of any soil or hydroponic medium for the planting of a 

controlled substance or the tending and care or harvesting of a controlled substance. 

(6)"Deliver" or "delivery" means the actual, constructive, or attempted transfer from one 

person to another of a controlled substance, whether or not there is an agency relationship. 

(7)"Dispense" means the transfer of possession of one or more doses of a medicinal drug by a 

pharmacist or other licensed practitioner to the ultimate consumer thereof or to one who 

represents that it is his or her intention not to consume or use the same but to transfer the same to 

the ultimate consumer or user for consumption by the ultimate consumer or user. 

(8)"Distribute" means to deliver, other than by administering or dispensing, a controlled 

substance. 



(9)"Distributor" means a person who distributes. 

(10)"Department" means the Department of Health. 

(11 )"Homologue" means a chemical compound in a series in which each compound differs by 

one or more alkyl functional groups on an alkyl side chain. 

(12)"Hospital" means an institution for the care and treatment of the sick and injured, 

licensed pursuant to the provisions of chapter 395 or owned or operated by the state or Federal 

Government. 

(13)"Laboratory" means a laboratory approved by the Drug Enforcement Administration as 

proper to be entrusted with the custody of controlled substances for scientific, medical, or 

instructional purposes or to aid law enforcement officers and prosecuting attorneys in the 

enforcement of this chapter. 

(14)"Listed chemical" means any precursor chemical or essential chemical named or described 

in s. 893.033. 

(15) (a)"Manufacture" means the production, preparation, propagation, compounding, 

cultivating, growing, conversion, or processing of a controlled substance, either directly or 

indirectly, by extraction from substances of natural origin, or independently by means of chemical 

synthesis, or by a combination of extraction and chemical synthesis, and includes any packaging of 

the substance or labeling or relabeling of its container, except that this term does not include the 

preparation, compounding, packaging, or labeling of a controlled substance by: 

1 .A practitioner or pharmacist as an incident to his or her administering or delivering of a 

controlled substance in the course of his or her professional practice. 

2.A practitioner, or by his or her authorized agent under the practitioner's supervision, for the 

purpose of, or as an incident to, research, teaching, or chemical analysis, and not for sale. 

(b)"Manufacturer" means and includes every person who prepares, derives, produces, 

compounds, or repackages any drug as defined by the Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act. However, this 

definition does not apply to manufacturers of patent or proprietary preparations as defined in the 

Florida Pharmacy Act. Pharmacies, and pharmacists employed thereby, are specifically excluded 

from this definition. 

(16)"Mixture" means any physical combination of two or more substances. 

(17)"Patient" means an individual to whom a controlled substance is lawfully dispensed or 

administered pursuant to the provisions of this chapter. 

(18)"Pharmacist" means a person who is licensed pursuant to chapter 465 to practice the 

profession of pharmacy in this state. 

(19)"Possession" includes temporary possession for the purpose of verification or testing, 

irrespective of dominion or control. 

(20)"Potential for abuse" means that a substance has properties of a central nervous system 



stimulant or depressant or an hallucinogen that create a substantial likelihood of its being: 

(a)Used in amounts that create a hazard to the user's health or the safety of the community; 

(b)Diverted from legal channels and distributed through illegal channels; or 

(c)Taken on the user's own initiative rather than on the basis of professional medical advice. 

Proof of potential for abuse can be based upon a showing that these activities are already taking 

place, or upon a showing that the nature and properties of the substance make it reasonable to 

assume that there is a substantial likelihood that such activities will take place, in other than 

isolated or occasional instances. 

(21 )"Practitioner" means a physician licensed pursuant to chapter 458, a dentist licensed 

pursuant to chapter 466, a veterinarian licensed pursuant to chapter 474, an osteopathic physician 

licensed pursuant to chapter 459, a naturopath licensed pursuant to chapter 462, or a podiatric 

physician licensed pursuant to chapter 461, provided such practitioner holds a valid federal 

controlled substance registry number. 

(22)"Prescription" means and includes an order for drugs or medicinal supplies written, 

signed, or transmitted by word of mouth, telephone, telegram, or other means of communication 

by a duly licensed practitioner licensed by the laws of the state to prescribe such drugs or 

medicinal supplies, issued in good faith and in the course of professional practice, intended to be 

filled, compounded, or dispensed by another person licensed by the laws of the state to do so, and 

meeting the requirements of s. 893.04. The term also includes an order for drugs or medicinal 

supplies so transmitted or written by a physician, dentist, veterinarian, or other practitioner 

licensed to practice in a state other than Florida, but only if the pharmacist called upon to fill such 

an order determines, in the exercise of his or her professional judgment, that the order was issued 

pursuant to a valid patient-physician relationship, that it is authentic, and that the drugs or 

medicinal supplies so ordered are considered necessary for the continuation of treatment of a 

chronic or recurrent illness. However, if the physician writing the prescription is not known to the 

pharmacist, the pharmacist shall obtain proof to a reasonable certainty of the validity of said 

prescription. A prescription order for a controlled substance shall not be issued on the same 

prescription blank with another prescription order for a controlled substance which is named or 

described in a different schedule, nor shall any prescription order for a controlled substance be 

issued on the same prescription blank as a prescription order for a medicinal drug, as defined in s. 

465.003(8), which does not fall within the definition of a controlled substance as defined in this 

act. 

(23)"Wholesaler" means any person who acts as a jobber, wholesale merchant, or broker, or 

an agent thereof, who sells or distributes for resale any drug as defined by the Florida Drug and 

Cosmetic Act. However, this definition does not apply to persons who sell only patent or 

proprietary preparations as defined in the Florida Pharmacy Act. Pharmacies, and pharmacists 



employed thereby, are specifically excluded from this definition. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 73-331; s. 1, ch. 75-18; s. 470, ch. 77-147; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 184, ch. 79-164; s. 1, ch. 79-325; 

s. 37, ch. 82-225; s. 169, ch. 83-216; s. 1, ch. 85-242; s. 1, ch. 91-279; s. 1, ch. 92-19; s. 1434, ch. 97-102; s. 104, 

ch. 97-264; s. 234, ch. 98-166; s. 300, ch. 99-8; s. 10, ch. 99-186; s. 1, ch. 2000-320; s. 3, ch. 2001 -55; S. 10, ch. 

2002-78; s. 13, ch. 2005-128; s. 1, ch. 2008-184; s. 18, ch. 2010-117; s. 1, ch. 2011-73. 

893.O3Standards and schedules.—The substances enumerated in this section are controlled 

by this chapter. The controlled substances listed or to be listed in Schedules I, II, III, IV, and V are 

included by whatever official, common, usual, chemical, or trade name designated. The provisions 

of this section shall not be construed to include within any of the schedules contained in this 

section any excluded drugs listed within the purview of 21 C.F.R. s. 1308.22, styled "Excluded 

Substances"; 21 C.F.R. s. 1308.24, styled "Exempt Chemical Preparations"; 21 C.F.R. s. 1308.32, 

styled "Exempted Prescription Products"; or 21 C.F.R. s. 1308.34, styled "Exempt Anabolic Steroid 

Products." 

(1)SCHEDULE 1.—A substance in Schedule I has a high potential for abuse and has no currently 

accepted medical use in treatment in the United States and in its use under medical supervision 

does not meet accepted safety standards. The following substances are controlled in Schedule I: 

(a)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any of the following 

substances, including their isomers, esters, ethers, salts, and salts of isomers, esters, and ethers, 

whenever the existence of such isomers, esters, ethers, and salts is possible within the specific 

chemical designation: 

1 .Acetyl-alpha-methylfentanyl. 

2 .Acetylmethadol. 

3.Allylprodine. 

4.Alphacetylmethadol (except levo-alphacetylmethadol, also known as levo-alpha- 

acetylmethadol, levomethadyl acetate, or LAAM). 

5 .Alphamethadol. 

6.Alpha-methylfentanyl (N- 1 - (alpha-methyl-betaphenyl) ethyl-4-piperidyl] propionanilide; 1 - 

(1 -methyl-2-phenylethyl)-4-(N-propanilido) piperidine). 

7.Alpha-methylthiofentanyl. 

8 .Alphameprodine. 

9.Benzethidine. 

10.Benzylfentanyl. 

11 .Betacetylmethadol. 

12.Beta-hydroxyfentanyl. 

1 3.Beta-hydroxy-3-methylfentanyl. 

14.Betameprodine. 



1 5.Betamethadol. 

16.Betaprodine. 

1 7.Clonitazene. 

18.Dextromoramide. 

19.Diampromide. 

20. Diethylthiambutene. 

21 .Difenoxin. 

22. Dimenoxadol. 

23. Dimepheptanol. 

24. Dimethylthiambutene. 

25.Dioxaphetyl butyrate. 

26.Dipipanone. 

27. Ethylmethylthiambutene. 

28.Etonitazene. 

29.Etoxeridine. 

30.Flunitrazepam. 

31 .Furethidine. 

32. Hydroxypethidine. 

33.Ketobemidone. 

34.Levomoramide. 

35. Levophenacylmorphan. 

36.1 -Methyl-4-Phenyl-4-Propionoxypiperidine (MPPP). 

37.3-Methylfentanyl (N- 

3-methyl-i - (2-phenylethyl)-4-piperidyl] -N -phenyipropanamide). 

38. 3-Methylthiofentanyl. 

39.3, 4-Methylenedioxymethamphetamine 

(MDMA). 

40.Morpheridine. 

41 .Noracymethadol. 

42. Norlevorphanol. 

43. Normethadone. 

44.Norpipanone. 

45. Para-Fluorofentanyl. 

46.Phenadoxone. 

47. Phenampromide. 

48.Phenomorphan. 



49. Phenoperidine. 

50.1 - (2-Phenylethyl)-4- Phenyl-4-Acetyloxypiperidine (PEPAP). 

51 .Piritramide. 

52.Proheptazine. 

53.Properidine. 

54.Propiram. 

55.Racemoramide. 

56 .Thenylfentanyl. 

57.Thiofentanyl. 

58.Tilidine. 

59 .Trimeperidi ne. 

(b)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any of the following 

substances, their salts, isomers, and salts of isomers, whenever the existence of such salts, 

isomers, and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation: 

1 .Acetorphine. 

2 .Acetyldihydrocodeine. 

3. Benzylmorphine. 

4.Codeine methylbromide. 

5.Codeine-N-Oxide. 

6.Cyprenorphine. 

7. Desomorphine. 

8. Dihydromorphine. 

9.Drotebanol. 

10. Etorphine (except hydrochloride salt). 

11. Heroin 

12.Hydromorphinol. 

1 3.Methyldesorphine. 

1 4.Methyldihydromorphine. 

1 5.Monoacetylmorphine. 

1 6.Morphine methylbromide. 

1 7.Morphine methylsulfonate. 

18.Morphine-N -Oxide. 

19.Myrophine. 

20.Nicocodine. 

21 .Nicomorphine. 

22.Normorphine. 



23.Pholcodine. 

24.Thebacon. 

(c)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, 

mixture, or preparation that contains any quantity of the following hallucinogenic substances or 

that contains any of their salts, isomers, and salts of isomers, if the existence of such salts, 

isomers, and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation: 

1 .Alpha-ethyltryptamine. 

2.2-Amino-4-methyl-5-phenyl-2-oxazoline (4-methylaminorex). 

3.2-Amino-5-phenyl-2-oxazoline (Aminorex). 

4.4-Bromo-2, 5-dimethoxyamphetamine. 

5 .4-Bromo-2, 5-dimethoxyphenethylamine. 

6. Bufotenine. 

7.Cannabis. 

8.Cathinone. 

9. Diethyltryptamine. 

10.2, 5-Dimethoxyamphetamine. 

11 .2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-ethylamphetamine (DOET). 

12.Dimethyltryptamine. 

13.N-Ethyl-1-phenylcyclohexylamine (PCE) (Ethylamine analog of phencyclidine). 

14.N-Ethyl-3-piperidyl benzilate. 

1 5.N-ethylamphetamine. 

1 6.Fenethylline. 

17.N-Hydroxy-3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine. 

18.Ibogaine. 

19. Lysergic acid diethylamide (LSD). 

20 .Mescali ne. 

21 .Methcathinone. 

22. 5-Methoxy-3 ,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine. 

23.4-methoxyamphetamine. 

24.4-methoxymethamphetamine. 

25 .4-Methyl-2, 5 -dimethoxyamphetamine. 

26. 3,4-Methylenedioxy-N-ethylamphetamine. 

27. 3,4-Methylenedioxyamphetamine. 

28. N-Methyl-3-piperidyl benzilate. 

29. N, N -dimethylamphetamine. 

30.Parahexyl. 



31 .Peyote. 

32. N- (1 - Phenylcyclohexyl)-pyrrolidine (PCPY) (Pyrrolidine analog of phencyclidine). 

33. Psi locybi n. 

34. Psi locyn. 

35.Salvia divinorum, except for any drug product approved by the United States Food and 

Drug Administration which contains Salvia divinorum or its isomers, esters, ethers, salts, and salts 

of isomers, esters, and ethers, if the existence of such isomers, esters, ethers, and salts is possible 

within the specific chemical designation. 

36.Salvinorin A, except for any drug product approved by the United States Food and Drug 

Administration which contains Salvinorin A or its isomers, esters, ethers, salts, and salts of isomers, 

esters, and ethers, if the existence of such isomers, esters, ethers, and salts is possible within the 

specific chemical designation. 

37.Tetrahydrocannabinols. 

38.1 1 - (2-Thienyl)-cyclohexyl] -piperidine (TCP) (Thiophene analog of phencyclidine). 

39.3,4, 5-Trimethoxyamphetamine. 

40. 3,4-Methylenedioxymethcathinone. 

41 . 3,4-Methylenedioxypyrovalerone (MDPV). 

42 .Methylmethcathinone. 

43 .Methoxymethcathinone. 

44. Fluoromethcathinone. 

45 .Methylethcathinone. (1 R,35)-3-hydroxycyclohexyl]-5-(2-methyloctan-2-yl)phenol, also known as CP 47,497 

and its dimethyloctyl (C8) homologue. 

47.(6aR, 1 OaR)-9-(hydroxymethyl)-6,6-dimethyl-3-(2-methyloctan-2-yl)-6a,7, 10,1 Oa- 

tetrahydrobenzo c]chromen-1-ol, also known as HU-210. 

48.1 -Pentyl-3-(1 -naphthoyl)indole, also known as JWH-01 8. 

49.1 -Butyl-3-(1 -naphthoyl)indole, also known as JWH-073. 

50.1 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl]-3-(1 -naphthoyl) indole, also known as JWH-200. 

51 .BZP (Benzylpiperazine). 

52. Fluorophenylpiperazine. 

53 .Methylphenylpiperazine. 

54.Chlorophenylpiperazine. 

55 .Methoxyphenylpiperazine. 

56.DBZP (1 ,4-dibenzylpiperazine). 

57.TFMPP (3-Trifluoromethylphenylpiperazine). 

58.MBDB (Methylbenzodioxolylbutanamine). 



59. 5-Hydroxy-alpha-methyltryptamine. 

60. 5-Hydroxy-N -methyltryptamine. 

61 . 5-Methoxy-N -methyl- N-isopropyltryptamine. 

62. 5-Methoxy-alpha-methyltryptamine. 

63 .Methyltryptamine. 

64. 5-Methoxy-N , N -dimethyltryptamine. 

65.5-Methyl-N, N -dimethyltryptamine. 

66.Tyramine (4-Hydroxyphenethylamine). 

67.5-Methoxy-N , N-Diisopropyltryptamine. 

68.D1PT (N,N-Diisopropyltryptamine). 

69.DPT (N,N-Dipropyltryptamine). 

70.4-Hydroxy-N , N -diisopropyltryptamine. 

71 . N, N -Diallyl-5-Methoxytryptamine. 

72.DOI (4-Iodo-2,5-dimethoxyamphetamine). 

73.DOC (4-Chloro-2,5-dimethoxyamphetamine). 

74.2C-E (4- Ethyl-2, 5-dimethoxyphenethylamine). 

75 .2C-T-4 (2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-isopropylthiophenethylamine). 

76.2C-C (4-Chloro-2, 5-dimethoxyphenethylamine). 

77.2C-T (2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-methylthiophenethylamine). 

78.2C-T-2 (2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-ethylthiophenethylamine). 

79 .2C-T-7 (2, 5-Dimethoxy-4- (n )-propylthiophenethylamine). 

80.2C-I (4-Iodo-2,5-dimethoxyphenethylamine). 

81 . Butylone (beta-keto-N-methylbenzodioxolylpropylamine). 

82.Ethcathinone. 

83. Ethylone (3,4-methylenedioxy-N-ethylcathinone). 

84. Naphyrone (naphthylpyrovalerone). 

85. N-N -Dimethyl-3 ,4-methylenedioxycathinone. 

86. N-N -Diethyl-3,4-methylenedioxycathinone. 

87.3,4-methylenedioxy-propiophenone. 

88.2-Bromo-3 ,4-Methylenedioxypropiophenone. 

89. 3,4-methylenedioxy-propiophenone-2-oxime. 

90. N-Acetyl-3 ,4-methylenedioxycathinone. 

91 . N-Acetyl- N -Methyl-3 ,4-Methylenedioxycathinone. 

92. N-Acetyl- N - Ethyl-3,4-Methylenedioxycathinone. 

93. Bromomethcathinone. 

94. Buphedrone (alpha- methylamino-butyrophenone). 



95. EutyLone (beta-Keto-EthytbenzodioxotyLbutanamine). 

96. Dimethylcathinone. 

97. DimethyLmethcathinone. 

98. Pentytone (beta-Keto-MethyLbenzodioxoLyLpentanamine). 

99. (MDPPP) 3 ,4-MethyLenedioxy-aLpha-pyrroLidinopropiophenone. 

100. (MDPBP) 3,4-MethyLenedioxy-aLpha-pyrroLidinobutiophenone. 

101 .Methoxy-alpha-pyrrolidinopropiophenone (MOPPP). 

102 .MethyL-aLpha-pyrroLidinohexiophenone (MPHP). 

103. BenocycLidine (BCP) or benzothiophenytcycLohexylpiperidine (BTCP). 

104. Ftuoromethytaminobutyrophenone (F-MABP). 

105 .MethoxypyrroLidinobutyrophenone (MeO-PBP). 

106. EthyL-pyrroLidinobutyrophenone (Et-PBP). 

107. 3-MethyL-4-Methoxymethcathinone (3-Me-4-MeO-MCAT). 

1 08.MethyLethytaminobutyrophenone (Me-EABP). 

109.MethyLamino-butyrophenone (MABP). 

110.PyrroLidinopropiophenone (PPP). 

111 .PyrroLidinobutiophenone (PBP). 

1 12.PyrroLidinovalerophenone (PVP). 

11 3.MethyL-alpha-pyrrolidinopropiophenone (MPPP). 

1 14.JWH-007 (1 -pentyt-2-methyl-3-(1 -naphthoyL)indoLe). 

11 5.JWH-01 5 (2-Methyl-i -propyl-i H-indol-3-yL)-i -naphthatenytmethanone). 

ii 6.JWH-0i 9 (Naphthaten-i -yl-(i -hexylindoL-3-yl)methanone). 

ii 7.JWH-020 (1 -heptyt-3-(i -naphthoyL)indole). 

ii 8.JWH-072 (Naphthaten-i -yl-(i -propyL-i H-indol-3-yL)methanone). 

ii 9.JWH-081 (4-methoxynaphthalen-i -yl-(i -pentyLindoL-3-yL)methanone). 

1 20.JWH-i 22 (1 -Pentyt-3-(4-methyl-i -naphthoyl)indole). 

121 .JWH-i 33 ((6aR, 1 OaR)-3-(i , 1 -DimethylbutyL)-6a,7, 10,1 Oa-tetrahydro-6,6,9-trimethyl-6H- 

b,d]pyran)). 
1 22.JWH-i 75 (3-(naphthaLen-i -ylmethyL)-i -pentyl-i H-indole). 

123 .JWH-201 (1 -pentyt-3- (4-methoxyphenylacetyL)indole). 

1 24.JWH-203 (2-(2-chtorophenyt)-1 -(1 -pentylindoL-3-yL)ethanone). 

1 25.JWH-21 0 (4-ethytnaphthaLen-i -yl-(i -pentylindol-3-yL)methanone). 

1 26.JWH-250 (2-(2-methoxyphenyL)-i -(1 -pentylindoL-3-yl)ethanone). 

1 27.JWH-251 (2-(2-methyLphenyL)-i -(1 -pentyl-i H-indol-3-yl)ethanone). 

1 28.JWH-302 (1 -pentyL-3- (3-methoxyphenylacetyL)indole). 

1 29.JWH-398 (1 -pentyL-3-(4-chloro-i -naphthoyL)indoLe). 



1 30.HU-21 1 ((6aS,1 OaS)-9-(Hydroxymethyl)-6,6-dimethyl-3-(2-methyloctan-2-yl)-6a,7,1 0,1 Oa- 

c]chromen-1 -01). 

131 .HU-308 (1 2,6-dimethoxy-4-(2-methyloctan-2-yl)phenyl]-7,7-dimethyl-4- 3.1 .1]hept-3-enyl] methanol). 

1 32.HU-331 (1 R,6R)-3-methyl-6-(1 - methylethenyl)-2-cyclohexen-1 -yl]-5-pentyl- 

2,5-cyclohexadiene-1 ,4-dione). 

1 33.CB-1 3 (Naphthalen-1 -yl-(4-pentyloxynaphthalen-1 -yl)methanone). 

1 34.CB-25 (N-cyclopropyl-1 1 -(3-hydroxy-5-pentylphenoxy)-undecanamide). 

1 35.CB-52 (N-cyclopropyl-1 1 -(2-hexyl-5-hydroxyphenoxy)-undecanamide). 

1 36.CP 55,940 (1 R,2R,5R)-5-hydroxy-2-(3-hydroxypropyl)cyclohexyl]-5-(2-methyloctan-2- 

yl)phenol). 

1 37.AM-694 (1 (5-fluoropentyl)-1 H-indol-3-yl]-(2-iodophenyl)methanone). 

1 38.AM-2201 (1 (5-fluoropentyl)-1 H-indol-3-yl]-(naphthalen-1 -yl)methanone). 

1 39.RCS-4 ((4-methoxyphenyl) (1 -pentyl-1 H-indol-3-yl)methanone). 

140.RCS-8 (1 -(1 -(2-cyclohexylethyl)-1 H-indol-3-yl)-2-(2-methoxyphenylethanone). 

141 .W1N55,212-2 ,2,3-de]-1 ,4- 

benzoxazin-6-yl] -1 - naphthalenylmethanone). 

142.W1N55,21 2-3 ,2,3-de]-1 ,4- 

benzoxazin-6-yl] -1 - naphthalenylmethanone). 

(d)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, 

mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances, including any of 

its salts, isomers, optical isomers, salts of their isomers, and salts of these optical isomers 

whenever the existence of such isomers and salts is possible within the specific chemical 

designation: 

1 .1 ,4-Butanediol. 

2.Gamma-butyrolactone (GBL). 

3.Gamma-hydroxybutyric acid (GHB). 

4 .Methaq ualone. 

5 .Mecloqualone. 

(2)SCHEDULE 11.—A substance in Schedule II has a high potential for abuse and has a currently 

accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United States, and abuse of the 

substance may lead to severe psychological or physical dependence. The following substances are 

controlled in Schedule II: 

(a)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any of the following 

substances, whether produced directly or indirectly by extraction from substances of vegetable 

origin or independently by means of chemical synthesis: 





7. Dihydrocodeine. 

8. Diphenoxylate. 

9.Fentanyl. 

10.Isomethadone. 

11 .Levomethorphan. 

1 2.Levorphanol. 

1 3.Metazocine. 

1 4.Methadone. 

15 .Methadone- I ntermediate,4-cyano-2- 

dimethylamino-4,4-diphenylbutane. 

1 6.Moramide- I ntermediate,2-methyl- 

3-morpholoino- 1 , 1 -diphenylpropane-carboxylic acid. 

17. Nabi lone. 

18.Pethidine (meperidine). 

19. Pethidine- I ntermediate-A,4-cyano- 1- 

methyl-4-phenylpiperidine. 

20. Pethidine- I ntermediate-B,ethyl-4- 

phenylpiperidine-4-carboxylate. 

21 . Pethidine- Intermediate-C, 1 -methyl-4- phenylpiperidine-4-carboxylic acid. 

22.Phenazocine. 

23.Phencyclidine. 

24.1 -Phenylcyclohexylamine. 

25.Piminodine. 

26.1 -Piperidinocyclohexanecarbonitrile. 

27. Racemethorphan. 

28.Racemorphan. 

29.Sufentanil. 

(c)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, 

mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances, including their 

salts, isomers, optical isomers, salts of their isomers, and salts of their optical isomers: 

1 .Amobarbital. 

2.Amphetamine. 

3 .Glutethimide. 

4.Methamphetamine. 

5 .Methylphenidate. 

6. Pentobarbital. 



7. Phenmetrazine. 

8. Phenylacetone. 

9.Secobarbital. 

(3)SCHEDULE 111.—A substance in Schedule III has a potential for abuse less than the substances 

contained in Schedules I and II and has a currently accepted medical use in treatment in the United 

States, and abuse of the substance may lead to moderate or low physical dependence or high 

psychological dependence or, in the case of anabolic steroids, may lead to physical damage. The 

following substances are controlled in Schedule III: 

(a)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, 

mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances having a 

depressant or stimulant effect on the nervous system: 

1 .Any substance which contains any quantity of a derivative of barbituric acid, including 

thiobarbituric acid, or any salt of a derivative of barbituric acid or thiobarbituric acid, including, 

but not limited to, butabarbital and butalbital. 

2.Benzphetamine. 

3.Chlorhexadol. 

4.Chlorphentermine. 

5.Clortermine. 

6.Lysergic acid. 

7.Lysergic acid amide. 

8.Methyprylon. 

9. Phendimetrazine. 

1 O.Sulfondiethylmethane. 

11 .Sulfonethylmethane. 

1 2.Sulfonmethane. 

13.Tiletamine and zolazepam or any salt thereof. 

(b )Nalorphine. 

(c)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, 

mixture, or preparation containing limited quantities of any of the following controlled substances 

or any salts thereof: 

1 .Not more than 1.8 grams of codeine per 100 milliliters or not more than 90 milligrams per 

dosage unit, with an equal or greater quantity of an isoquinoline alkaloid of opium. 

2.Not more than 1.8 grams of codeine per 100 milliliters or not more than 90 milligrams per 

dosage unit, with recognized therapeutic amounts of one or more active ingredients which are not 

controlled substances. 

3.Not more than 300 milligrams of hydrocodone per 100 milliliters or not more than 15 



milligrams per dosage unit, with a fourfold or greater quantity of an isoquinoline alkaloid of opium. 

4.Not more than 300 milligrams of hydrocodone per 100 milliliters or not more than 15 

milligrams per dosage unit, with recognized therapeutic amounts of one or more active ingredients 

that are not controlled substances. 

5.Not more than 1.8 grams of dihydrocodeine per 100 milliliters or not more than 90 

milligrams per dosage unit, with recognized therapeutic amounts of one or more active ingredients 

which are not controlled substances. 

6.Not more than 300 milligrams of ethylmorphine per 100 milliliters or not more than 15 

milligrams per dosage unit, with one or more active, nonnarcotic ingredients in recognized 

therapeutic amounts. 

7.Not more than 50 milligrams of morphine per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams, with 

recognized therapeutic amounts of one or more active ingredients which are not controlled 

substances. 

For purposes of charging a person with a violation of s. 893.135 involving any controlled 

substance described in subparagraph 3. or subparagraph 4., the controlled substance is a Schedule 

III controlled substance pursuant to this paragraph but the weight of the controlled substance per 

milliliters or per dosage unit is not relevant to the charging of a violation of s. 893.135. The weight 

of the controlled substance shall be determined pursuant to s. 893.135(6). 

(d)Anabolic steroids. 

1 .The term "anabolic steroid" means any drug or hormonal substance, chemically and 

pharmacologically related to testosterone, other than estrogens, progestins, and corticosteroids, 

that promotes muscle growth and includes: 

a.Androsterone. 

b.Androsterone acetate. 

c. Boldenone. 

d.Boldenone acetate. 

e. Boldenone benzoate. 

f.Boldenone undecylenate. 

g.Chlorotestosterone (4-chlortestosterone). 

h.Clostebol. 

i. Dehyd rochlormethyltestosterone. 

j . Dihyd rotestosterone (4-dihyd rotestosterone). 

k. Drostanolone. 

I. Ethylestrenol. 

m. Fluoxymesterone. 

n.Formebulone (formebolone). 



o.Mesterolone. 

p.Methandienone. 

q.Methandranone. 

r.Methandriol. 

s.Methandrostenolone. 

t.Methenolone. 

u . Methyltestosterone. 

v.Mibolerone. 

w. Nandrolone. 

x. Norethandrolone. 

y. Nortestosterone. 

z. Nortestosterone decanoate. 

aa.Nortestosterone phenylpropionate. 

bb.Nortestosterone propionate. 

cc. Oxandrolone. 

dd . Oxymesterone. 

ee.Oxymetholone. 

ff.Stanolone. 

gg.Stanozolol. 

hh.Testolactone. 

ii.Testosterone. 

jj .Testosterone acetate. 

kk.Testosterone benzoate. 

1l.Testosterone cypionate. 

mm .Testosterone decanoate. 

nn.Testosterone enanthate. 

oo.Testosterone isocaproate. 

pp.Testosterone oleate. 

qq.Testosterone phenylpropionate. 

rr.Testosterone propionate. 

ss.Testosterone undecanoate. 

tt .Trenbolone. 

uu.Trenbolone acetate. 

vv.Any salt, ester, or isomer of a drug or substance described or listed in this subparagraph if 

that salt, ester, or isomer promotes muscle growth. 

2.The term does not include an anabolic steroid that is expressly intended for administration 



through implants to cattle or other nonhuman species and that has been approved by the United 

States Secretary of Health and Human Services for such administration. However, any person who 

prescribes, dispenses, or distributes such a steroid for human use is considered to have prescribed, 

dispensed, or distributed an anabolic steroid within the meaning of this paragraph. 

(e)Ketamine, including any isomers, esters, ethers, salts, and salts of isomers, esters, and 

ethers, whenever the existence of such isomers, esters, ethers, and salts is possible within the 

specific chemical designation. 

(f)Dronabinol (synthetic THC) in sesame oil and encapsulated in a soft gelatin capsule in a drug 

product approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration. 

(g)Any drug product containing gamma-hydroxybutyric acid, including its salts, isomers, and 

salts of isomers, for which an application is approved under s. 505 of the Federal Food, Drug, and 

Cosmetic Act. 

(4)SCHEDULE IV.—A substance in Schedule IV has a low potential for abuse relative to the 

substances in Schedule III and has a currently accepted medical use in treatment in the United 

States, and abuse of the substance may lead to limited physical or psychological dependence 

relative to the substances in Schedule III. Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another 

schedule, any material, compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the 

following substances, including its salts, isomers, and salts of isomers whenever the existence of 

such salts, isomers, and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation, are 

controlled in Schedule IV: 

(a)Alprazolam. 

(b)Barbital. 

(c)Bromazepam. 

(d )Camazepam. 

(e)Cathine. 

(f)Chloral betaine. 

(g)Chloral hydrate. 

(h)Chlordiazepoxide. 

(i)Clobazam. 

(j)Clonazepam. 

(k)Clorazepate. 

(l)Clotiazepam. 

(m )Cloxazolam. 

(n)Delorazepam. 

(o)Propoxyphene (dosage forms). 

(p)Diazepam. 



(q )Diethytpropion. 

(r)Estazolam. 

(s)Ethchlorvynol. 

(t)Ethinamate. 

(u)Ethyl Loflazepate. 

(v)Fencamfamin. 

(w)FenfLuramine. 

(x)Fenproporex. 

(y)Fludiazepam. 

(z)Flurazepam. 

(aa)HaLazepam. 

(bb)HatoxazoLam. 

(cc)Ketazotam. 

(dd)Loprazolam. 

(ee)Lorazepam. 

(ff)Lormetazepam. 

(gg)Mazindot. 

(hh)Mebutamate. 

(ii)Medazepam. 

(jj )Mefenorex. 

(kk)Meprobamate. 

(LL)Methohexitat. 

(mm )Methytphenobarbitat. 

(nn)Midazotam. 

(oo)Nimetazepam. 

(pp)Nitrazepam. 

(qq)Nordiazepam. 

(rr)Oxazepam. 

(ss)OxazoLam. 

(tt)Paratdehyde. 

(uu)Pemotine. 

(vv)Pentazocine. 

(ww ) P he no ba rbita I 

(xx)Phentermine. 

(yy)Pinazepam. 

(zz)PipradroL. 



(aaa)Prazepam. 

(bbb)Propylhexedrine, excluding any patent or proprietary preparation containing 

propylhexedrine, unless otherwise provided by federal law. 

(ccc)Quazepam. 

(ddd )Tetrazepam. (-)-1 dimethylamino-1, 2 

diphenylethane]. 

(fff)Temazepam. 

(ggg)Triazolam. 

(hhh)Not more than 1 milligram of difenoxin and not less than 25 micrograms of atropine 

sulfate per dosage unit. 

(iii)Butorphanol tartrate. 

(jjj )Carisoprodol. 

(5)SCHEDULE V.—A substance, compound, mixture, or preparation of a substance in Schedule 

V has a low potential for abuse relative to the substances in Schedule IV and has a currently 

accepted medical use in treatment in the United States, and abuse of such compound, mixture, or 

preparation may lead to limited physical or psychological dependence relative to the substances in 

Schedule IV. 

(a)Substances controlled in Schedule V include any compound, mixture, or preparation 

containing any of the following limited quantities of controlled substances, which shall include one 

or more active medicinal ingredients which are not controlled substances in sufficient proportion to 

confer upon the compound, mixture, or preparation valuable medicinal qualities other than those 

possessed by the controlled substance alone: 

1.Not more than 200 milligrams of codeine per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams. 

2.Not more than 100 milligrams of dihydrocodeine per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams. 

3.Not more than 100 milligrams of ethylmorphine per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams. 

4.Not more than 2.5 milligrams of diphenoxylate and not less than 25 micrograms of atropine 

sulfate per dosage unit. 

5.Not more than 100 milligrams of opium per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams. 

(b)Narcotic drugs. Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any 

material, compound, mixture, or preparation containing any of the following narcotic drugs and 

their salts: Buprenorphine. 

(c)Stimulants. Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, 

compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances having 

a stimulant effect on the central nervous system, including its salts, isomers, and salts of isomers: 

Pyrovalerone. 



History.—s. 3, ch. 73-331; s. 247, ch. 77-104; s. 1, ch. 77-174; ss. 1, 2, ch. 78-195; s. 2, ch. 79-325; s. 1, ch. 80- 

353; s. 1, ch. 82-16; s. 1, ch. 84-89; s. 2, ch. 85-242; s. 1, ch. 86-147; s. 2, ch. 87-243; s. 1, ch. 87-299; s. 1, ch. 88- 

59; s. 3, ch. 89-281; s. 54, ch. 92-69; s. 1, ch. 93-92; s. 4, ch. 95-415; s. 1, ch. 96-360; ss. 1, 5, ch. 97-1; s. 96, ch. 

97-264; s. 1, ch. 99-186; s. 2, ch. 2000-320; s. 1, ch. 2001-55; s. 5, ch. 2001-57; s. 1, ch. 2002-78; s. 2, ch. 2003-10; 

s. 1, ch. 2008-88; s. 2, ch. 2011-73; s. 1, ch. 2011-90; s. 1, ch. 2012-23. 

Note.—Section 1, ch. 97-1, added paragraph (4)(w) listing fenfluramine. Section 5, ch. 97-1, 

repealed paragraph (4)(w) effective upon the removal of fenfluramine from the schedules of 

controlled substances in 21 C.F.R. s. 1308. The Drug Enforcement Administration of the United 

States Department of Justice filed a proposed final rule removing fenfluramine from the schedules, 

see 62 F.R. 24620, May 6, 1997. 

893.0301 Death resulting from apparent drug overdose; reporting requirements.—If a 

person dies of an apparent drug overdose: 

(1 )A law enforcement agency shall prepare a report identifying each prescribed controlled 

substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule III, or Schedule IV of s. 893.03 which is found on or near 

the deceased or among the deceased's possessions. The report must identify the person who 

prescribed the controlled substance, if known or ascertainable. Thereafter, the law enforcement 

agency shall submit a copy of the report to the medical examiner. 

(2)A medical examiner who is preparing a report pursuant to s. 406.11 shall include in the 

report information identifying each prescribed controlled substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule 

III, or Schedule IV of s. 893.03 that was found in, on, or near the deceased or among the 

deceased's possessions. 

History.—s. 6, ch. 2007-156. 

893.031 Industrial exceptions to controlled substance scheduling.— 

(1 )For the purpose of this section, the following meanings of terms shall apply: 

(a)"Manufacture" means any process or operation necessary for manufacturing a product. 

(b)"Distribution" means any process or operation necessary for distributing a product, 

including, but not limited to, wholesaling, delivery or transport, and storage. 

(c)"Manufacturer of 1 ,4-Butanediol" means a person who is involved in the manufacture of 

1 ,4-Butanediol for use in the manufacture of an industrial product and who provides that 

manufactured 1 ,4-Butanediol to a distributor of 1 ,4-Butanediol or a manufacturer of an industrial 

product. 

(d)"Distributor of 1 ,4-Butanediol" means a person who is involved in the distribution of 1,4- 

Butanediol. 

(e)"Manufacturer of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL)" means a person who: 

1.Is involved in the manufacture of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) for use in the manufacture of 

an industrial product and who provides that manufactured gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) to a 





manufacturer of an industrial product; 

(b)A manufacturer of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) or a distributor of gamma-butyrolactone 

(GBL) who sells, delivers, or otherwise distributes that substance to a person who is not a 

distributor of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) or a manufacturer of an industrial product; 

(c)A person who possesses 1 ,4-Butanediol but who is not a manufacturer of 1 ,4-Butanediol, a 

distributor of 1 ,4-Butanediol, a manufacturer of an industrial product, a distributor of an industrial 

product, or a person possessing a finished product as described in paragraph (2)(c) or paragraph 

(3)(c); 

(d)A person who possesses gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) but who is not a manufacturer of 

gamma-butyrolactone (GBL), a distributor of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL), a manufacturer of an 

industrial product, a distributor of an industrial product, or a person possessing a finished product 

as described in paragraph (2)(c) or paragraph (3)(c); 

(e)A person who extracts or synthesizes either 1 ,4-Butanediol or gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) 

from a finished product as described in subparagraph(1)(j)2. or a person who extracts or 

synthesizes 1 ,4-Butanediol or gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) from any product or material, unless 

such extraction or synthesis is authorized by law; or 

(f)A person whose possession of either 1 ,4-Butanediol or gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) is not in 

compliance with the requirements of this section or whose possession of either of those substances 

is not specifically authorized by law. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2003-10. 

893.O33Listed chemicals.—The chemicals listed in this section are included by whatever 

official, common, usual, chemical, or trade name designated. 

(1)PRECURSOR CHEMICALS.—The term "listed precursor chemical" means a chemical that may 

be used in manufacturing a controlled substance in violation of this chapter and is critical to the 

creation of the controlled substance, and such term includes any salt, optical isomer, or salt of an 

optical isomer, whenever the existence of such salt, optical isomer, or salt of optical isomer is 

possible within the specific chemical designation. The following are "listed precursor chemicals": 

(a)Anthranilic acid. 

(b)Benzaldehyde. 

(c)Benzyl cyanide. 

(d)Chloroephedrine. 

(e)Chloropseudoephedrine. 

(f) Ephed ri ne. 

(g)Ergonovine. 

(h)Ergotamine. 

(i)Hydriodic acid. 



(j )Ethylamine. 

(k)Isosaf role. 

(l)Methylamine. 

(m )3, 4-Methylenedioxyphenyl-2-propanone. 

(n)N-acetylanthranilic acid. 

(o)N-ethylephedrine. 

(p)N-ethylpseudoephedri ne. 

(q)N-methylephedrine. 

(r)N-methylpseudoephedrine. 

(s) Nitroethane. 

(t)Norpseudoephedrine. 

(u)Phenylacetic acid. 

(v) Phenylpropanolamine. 

(w)Piperidine. 

(x)Piperonal. 

(y)Propionic anhydride. 

(z)Pseudoephedrine. 

(aa)Safrole. 

(2)ESSENTIAL CHEMICALS.—The term "listed essential chemical" means a chemical that may be 

used as a solvent, reagent, or catalyst in manufacturing a controlled substance in violation of this 

chapter. The following are "listed essential chemicals": 

(a)Acetic anhydride. 

(b)Acetone. 

(c)Anhydrous ammonia. 

(d)Benzyl chloride. 

(e)2-Butanone. 

(f)Ethyl ether. 

(g)Hydrochloric gas. 

(h)Hydriodic acid. 

(i)Iodine. 

(j)Potassium permanganate. 

(k)Toluene. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 91 -279; s. 6, ch. 2001-57; s. 2, ch. 2003-15; s. 1, ch. 2005-128. 

893.O35Control of new substances; findings of fact; delegation of authority to Attorney 

General to control substances by rule.— 

(1 )(a)New substances are being created which are not controlled under the provisions of this 



chapter but which have a potential for abuse similar to or greater than that for substances 

controlled under this chapter. These new substances are sometimes called "designer drugs" 

because they can be designed to produce a desired pharmacological effect and to evade the 

controlling statutory provisions. Designer drugs are being manufactured, distributed, possessed, 

and used as substitutes for controlled substances. 

(b)The hazards attributable to the traffic in and use of these designer drugs are increased 

because their unregulated manufacture produces variations in purity and concentration. 

(c)Many such new substances are untested, and it cannot be immediately determined whether 

they have useful medical or chemical purposes. 

(d)The uncontrolled importation, manufacture, distribution, possession, or use of these 

designer drugs has a substantial and detrimental impact on the health and safety of the people of 

Florida. 

(e)These designer drugs can be created more rapidly than they can be identified and 

controlled by action of the Legislature. There is a need for a speedy and expert administrative 

determination of their proper classification under this chapter. It is therefore necessary to 

delegate to an administrative agency restricted authority to identify and classify new substances 

that have a potential for abuse, so that they can be controlled in the same manner as other 

substances currently controlled under this chapter. 

(2)The Attorney General shall apply the provisions of this section to any substance not 

currently controlled under the provisions of s. 893.03. The Attorney General may by rule: 

(a)Add a substance to a schedule established by s. 893.03, or transfer a substance between 

schedules, if he or she finds that it has a potential for abuse and he or she makes with respect to it 

the other findings appropriate for classification in the particular schedule under s. 893.03 in which 

it is to be placed. 

(b)Remove a substance previously added to a schedule if he or she finds the substance does 

not meet the requirements for inclusion in that schedule. 

Rules adopted under this section shall be made pursuant to the rulemaking procedures 

prescribed by chapter 120. 

(3)(a)The term "potential for abuse" in this section means that a substance has properties as a 

central nervous system stimulant or depressant or a hallucinogen that create a substantial 

likelihood of its being: 

1 .Used in amounts that create a hazard to the user's health or the safety of the community; 

2.Diverted from legal channels and distributed through illegal channels; or 

3.Taken on the user's own initiative rather than on the basis of professional medical advice. 

Proof of potential for abuse can be based upon a showing that these activities are already taking 

place, or upon a showing that the nature and properties of the substance make it reasonable to 



assume that there is a substantial likelihood that such activities will take place, in other than 

isolated or occasional instances. 

(b)The terms "immediate precursor" and "narcotic drug" shall be given the same meanings as 

provided by s. 102 of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970, 21 U.S.C. 

s. 802, as amended and in effect on April 1, 1985. 

(4)In making any findings under this section, the Attorney General shall consider the following 

factors with respect to each substance proposed to be controlled or removed from control: 

(a)Its actual or relative potential for abuse. 

(b)Scientific evidence of its pharmacological effect, if known. 

(c)The state of current scientific knowledge regarding the drug or other substance. 

(d)Its history and current pattern of abuse. 

(e)The scope, duration, and significance of abuse. 

(f)What, if any, risk there is to the public health. 

(g)Its psychic or physiological dependence liability. 

(h)Whether the substance is an immediate precursor of a substance already controlled under 

this chapter. 

The findings and conclusions of the United States Attorney General or his or her delegee, as set 

forth in the Federal Register, with respect to any substance pursuant to s. 201 of the 

Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970, 21 U.S.C. s. 811, as amended and 

in effect on April 1, 1985, shall be admissible as evidence in any rulemaking proceeding under this 

section, including an emergency rulemaking proceeding under subsection (7). 

(5)Before initiating proceedings under subsection (2), the Attorney General shall request from 

the Department of Health and the Department of Law Enforcement a medical and scientific 

evaluation of the substance under consideration and a recommendation as to the appropriate 

classification, if any, of such substance as a controlled substance. In responding to this request, the 

Department of Health and the Department of Law Enforcement shall consider the factors listed in 

subsection (4). The Department of Health and the Department of Law Enforcement shall respond to 

this request promptly and in writing; however, their response is not subject to chapter 120. If both 

the Department of Health and the Department of Law Enforcement recommend that a substance 

not be controlled, the Attorney General shall not control that substance. If the Attorney General 

determines, based on the evaluations and recommendations of the Department of Health and the 

Department of Law Enforcement and all other available evidence, that there is substantial 

evidence of potential for abuse, he or she shall initiate proceedings under paragraph (2)(a) with 

respect to that substance. 

(6)(a)The Attorney General shall by rule exempt any nonnarcotic substance controlled by rule 

under this section from the application of this section if such substance may, under the Federal 



Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, be lawfully sold over the counter without a prescription. 

(b)The Attorney General may by rule exempt any compound, mixture, or preparation 

containing a substance controlled by rule under this section from the application of this section if 

he or she finds that such compound, mixture, or preparation meets the requirements of either of 

the following subcategories: 

1 .A mixture or preparation containing a nonnarcotic substance controlled by rule, which 

mixture or preparation is approved for prescription use and which contains one or more other 

active ingredients which are not listed in any schedule and which are included therein in such 

combinations, quantity, proportion, or concentration as to vitiate the potential for abuse. 

2.A compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any substance controlled by rule, 

which is not for administration to a human being or animal, and which is packaged in such form or 

concentration, or with adulterants or denaturants, so that as packaged it does not present any 

significant potential for abuse. 

(7)(a)If the Attorney General finds that the scheduling of a substance in Schedule I of s. 893.03 

on a temporary basis is necessary to avoid an imminent hazard to the public safety, he or she may 

by rule and without regard to the requirements of subsection (5) relating to the Department of 

Health and the Department of Law Enforcement schedule such substance in Schedule I if the 

substance is not listed in any other schedule of s. 893.03. The Attorney General shall be required to 

consider, with respect to his or her finding of imminent hazard to the public safety, only those 

factors set forth in paragraphs (3)(a) and (4)(d), (e), and (f), including actual abuse, diversion from 

legitimate channels, and clandestine importation, manufacture, or distribution. 

(b)The Attorney General may use emergency rulemaking provisions under s. 120.54(4) in 

scheduling substances under this subsection. Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 120.54(4)(c), any 

rule adopted under this subsection shall not expire except as provided in subsection (9). 

(8)(a)Upon the effective date of a rule adopted pursuant to this section adding or transferring 

a substance to a schedule under s. 893.03, such substance shall be deemed included in that 

schedule, and all provisions of this chapter applicable to substances in that schedule shall be 

deemed applicable to such substance. 

(b)A rule adopted pursuant to this section shall continue in effect until it is repealed; until it 

is declared invalid in proceedings under s. 120.56 or in proceedings before a court of competent 

jurisdiction; or until it expires under the provisions of subsection (9). 

(9)The Attorney General shall report to the Legislature by March 1 of each year concerning the 

rules adopted under this section during the previous year. Each rule so reported shall expire on the 

following June 30 unless the Legislature adopts the provisions thereof as an amendment to this 

chapter. 

(10)The repeal, expiration, or determination of invalidity of any rule shall not operate to 



create any claim or cause of action against any law enforcement officer or other enforcing 

authority for actions taken in good faith in reliance on the validity of the rule. 

(11 )In construing this section, due consideration and great weight should be given to 

interpretations of the United States Attorney General and the federal courts relating to s. 201 of 

the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970, 21 U.S.C. s. 811, as amended 

and in effect on April 1, 1985. All substantive rules adopted under this part shall not be 

inconsistent with the rules of the United States Attorney General and the decisions of the federal 

courts interpreting the provisions of s. 201 of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and 

Control Act of 1970,21 U.S.C. s. 811, as amended and in effect on April 1, 1985. 

(12)The adoption of a rule transferring a substance from one schedule to another or removing 

a substance from a schedule pursuant to this section shall not affect prosecution or punishment for 

any crime previously committed with respect to that substance. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 85-242; s. 72, ch. 87-226; s. 255, ch. 94-218; s. 318, ch. 96-410; s. 1826, ch. 97-102; s. 16, ch. 

99-186. 

893.O355Control of scheduled substances; delegation of authority to Attorney General to 

reschedule substance, or delete substance, by rule.— 

(1 )The Legislature has determined that, from time to time, additional testings, approvals, or 

scientific evidence may indicate that controlled substances listed in Schedules I, II, III, IV, and V 

hereof have a greater potential for beneficial medical use in treatment in the United States than 

was evident when such substances were initially scheduled. It is the intent of the Legislature to 

quickly provide a method for an immediate change to the scheduling and control of such 

substances to allow for the beneficial medical use thereof so that more flexibility will be available 

than is possible through rescheduling legislatively. 

(2)The Attorney General is hereby delegated the authority to adopt rules rescheduling 

specified substances to a less controlled schedule, or deleting specified substances from a 

schedule, upon a finding that reduced control of such substances is in the public interest. In 

determining whether reduced control of a substance is in the public interest, the Attorney General 

shall consider the following: 

(a)Whether the substance has been rescheduled or deleted from any schedule by rule adopted 

by the United States Attorney General pursuant to s. 201 of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse 

Prevention and Control Act of 1970, 21 U.S.C. s. 811. 

(b)The substance's actual or relative potential for abuse. 

(c)Scientific evidence of the substance's pharmacological effect, if known. 

(d)The state of current scientific knowledge regarding the substance. 

(e)The substance's history and current pattern of abuse. 

(f)The scope, duration, and significance of abuse. 



(g)What, if any, risk there is to the public health. 

(h)The substance's psychic or physiological dependence liability. 

(3)In making the public interest determination, the Attorney General shall give great weight to 

the scheduling rules adopted by the United States Attorney General subsequent to such substances 

being listed in Schedules I, II, III, IV, and V hereof, to achieve the original legislative purpose of the 

Florida Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of maintaining uniformity between 

the laws of Florida and the laws of the United States with respect to controlled substances. 

(4)Rulemaking under this section shall be in accordance with the procedural requirements of 

chapter 120, including the emergency rule provisions found in s. 120.54. The Attorney General may 

initiate proceedings for adoption, amendment, or repeal of any rule on his or her own motion or 

upon the petition of any interested party. 

(5)Upon the effective date of a rule adopted pursuant to this section, the rule's rescheduling 

or deletion of a substance shall be effective for all purposes under this chapter. 

(6)Rules adopted pursuant to this section shall be reviewed each year by the Legislature. Each 

rule shall remain in effect until the effective date of legislation that provides for a different 

scheduling of a substance than that set forth in such rule. 

(7)The adoption of a rule rescheduling a substance or deleting a substance from control 

pursuant to this section shall not affect prosecution or punishment for any crime previously 

committed with respect to that substance. 

(8)The provisions of this section apply only to substances controlled expressly by statute and 

not to substances controlled by rules adopted under the authority granted in the provisions of s. 

893.035. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 85-242; s. 1435, ch. 97-102. 

893.O356Control of new substances; findings of fact; "controlled substance analog" 

defined.— 

(1 )(a)New substances are being created which are not controlled under the provisions of this 

chapter but which have a potential for abuse similar to or greater than that for substances 

controlled under this chapter. These new substances are called "controlled substance analogs," 

and can be designed to produce a desired pharmacological effect and to evade the controlling 

statutory provisions. Controlled substance analogs are being manufactured, distributed, possessed, 

and used as substitutes for controlled substances. 

(b)The hazards attributable to the traffic in and use of controlled substance analogs are 

increased because their unregulated manufacture produces variations in purity and concentration. 

(c)Many such new substances are untested, and it cannot be immediately determined whether 

they have useful medical or chemical purposes. 

(d)The uncontrolled importation, manufacture, distribution, possession, or use of controlled 



substance analogs has a substantial and detrimental impact on the health and safety of the people 

of Florida. 

(e)Controlled substance analogs can be created more rapidly than they can be identified and 

controlled by action of the Legislature. There is a need for a speedy determination of their proper 

classification under this chapter. It is therefore necessary to identify and classify new substances 

that have a potential for abuse, so that they can be controlled in the same manner as other 

substances currently controlled under this chapter. 

(2)(a)As used in this section, "controlled substance analog" means a substance which, due to 

its chemical structure and potential for abuse, meets the following criteria: 

1 .Is substantially similar to that of a controlled substance listed in Schedule I or Schedule II of 

s. 893.03; and 

2.Has a stimulant, depressant, or hallucinogenic effect on the central nervous system or is 

represented or intended to have a stimulant, depressant, or hallucinogenic effect on the central 

nervous system substantially similar to or greater than that of a controlled substance listed in 

Schedule I or Schedule II of s. 893.03. 

(b)"Controlled substance analog" does not include: 

1 .A controlled substance; 

2.Any substance for which there is an approved new drug application; 

3.Any compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any controlled substance which is 

not for administration to a human being or animal, and which is packaged in such form or 

concentration, or with adulterants or denaturants, so that as packaged it does not present any 

significant potential for abuse; or 

4.Any substance to which an investigational exemption applies under s. 505 of the Food, Drug, 

and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. 355, but only to the extent that conduct with respect to the substance 

is pursuant to such exemption. 

(3)The term "potential for abuse" in this section means that a substance has properties as a 

central nervous system stimulant or depressant or a hallucinogen that create a substantial 

likelihood of its being: 

(a)Used in amounts that create a hazard to the user's health or the safety of the community; 

(b)Diverted from legal channels and distributed through illegal channels; or 

(c)Taken on the user's own initiative rather than on the basis of professional medical advice. 

Proof of potential for abuse can be based upon a showing that these activities are already taking 

place, or upon a showing that the nature and properties of the substance make it reasonable to 

assume that there is a substantial likelihood that such activities will take place, in other than 

isolated or occasional instances. 

(4)The following factors shall be relevant to a finding that a substance is a controlled 



substance analog within the purview of this section: 

(a)Its actual or relative potential for abuse. 

(b)Scientific evidence of its pharmacological effect, if known. 

(c)The state of current scientific knowledge regarding the substance. 

(d)Its history and current pattern of abuse. 

(e)The scope, duration, and significance of abuse. 

(f)What, if any, risk there is to the public health. 

(g)Its psychic or physiological dependence liability. 

(h)Its diversion from legitimate channels, and clandestine importation, manufacture, or 

distribution. 

(i)Whether the substance is an immediate precursor of a substance already controlled under 

this chapter. 

(5)A controlled substance analog shall, for purposes of drug abuse prevention and control, be 

treated as a controlled substance in Schedule I of s. 893.03. 

(6)In construing this section, due consideration and great weight should be given to 

interpretations of the United States Attorney General and the federal courts relating to s. 201 of 

the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970, 21 U.S.C. s. 811, as amended 

and in effect on April 1, 1985. New substances controlled under this section shall not be treated in 

a manner inconsistent with the rules of the United States Attorney General and the decisions of the 

federal courts interpreting the provisions of s. 201 of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention 

and Control Act of 1970,21 U.S.C. s. 811, as amended and in effect on April 1, 1985. 

(7)The treatment of a new substance as a controlled substance pursuant to this section shall 

not affect prosecution or punishment for any crime previously committed with respect to that 

substance. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 87-243; s. 11, ch. 99-186; s. 20, ch. 2000-320. 

893.O4Pharmacist and practitioner.— 

(1 )A pharmacist, in good faith and in the course of professional practice only, may dispense 

controlled substances upon a written or oral prescription of a practitioner, under the following 

conditions: 

(a)Oral prescriptions must be promptly reduced to writing by the pharmacist or recorded 

electronically if permitted by federal law. 

(b)The written prescription must be dated and signed by the prescribing practitioner on the 

day when issued. 

(c)There shall appear on the face of the prescription or written record thereof for the 

controlled substance the following information: 

1 .The full name and address of the person for whom, or the owner of the animal for which, 



the controlled substance is dispensed. 

2.The full name and address of the prescribing practitioner and the practitioner's federal 

controlled substance registry number shall be printed thereon. 

3.If the prescription is for an animal, the species of animal for which the controlled substance 

is prescribed. 

4.The name of the controlled substance prescribed and the strength, quantity, and directions 

for use thereof. 

5.The number of the prescription, as recorded in the prescription files of the pharmacy in 

which it is filled. 

6.The initials of the pharmacist filling the prescription and the date filled. 

(d)The prescription shall be retained on file by the proprietor of the pharmacy in which it is 

filled for a period of 2 years. 

(e)Affixed to the original container in which a controlled substance is delivered upon a 

prescription or authorized refill thereof, as hereinafter provided, there shall be a label bearing the 

following information: 

1 .The name and address of the pharmacy from which such controlled substance was 

dispensed. 

2.The date on which the prescription for such controlled substance was filled. 

3.The number of such prescription, as recorded in the prescription files of the pharmacy in 

which it is filled. 

4.The name of the prescribing practitioner. 

5.The name of the patient for whom, or of the owner and species of the animal for which, the 

controlled substance is prescribed. 

6.The directions for the use of the controlled substance prescribed in the prescription. 

7.A clear, concise warning that it is a crime to transfer the controlled substance to any person 

other than the patient for whom prescribed. 

(f)A prescription for a controlled substance listed in Schedule II may be dispensed only upon a 

written prescription of a practitioner, except that in an emergency situation, as defined by 

regulation of the Department of Health, such controlled substance may be dispensed upon oral 

prescription but is limited to a 72-hour supply. A prescription for a controlled substance listed in 

Schedule II may not be refilled. 

(g)A prescription for a controlled substance listed in Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V 

may not be filled or refilled more than five times within a period of 6 months after the date on 

which the prescription was written unless the prescription is renewed by a practitioner. 

(2)(a)A pharmacist may not dispense a controlled substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule III, 

or Schedule IV to any patient or patient's agent without first determining, in the exercise of her or 



his professional judgment, that the order is valid. The pharmacist may dispense the controlled 

substance, in the exercise of her or his professional judgment, when the pharmacist or 

pharmacist's agent has obtained satisfactory patient information from the patient or the patient's 

agent. 

(b)Any pharmacist who dispenses by mail a controlled substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule 

III, or Schedule IV is exempt from the requirement to obtain suitable identification for the 

prescription dispensed by mail if the pharmacist has obtained the patient's identification through 

the patient's prescription benefit plan. 

(c)Any controlled substance listed in Schedule III or Schedule IV may be dispensed by a 

pharmacist upon an oral prescription if, before filling the prescription, the pharmacist reduces it to 

writing or records the prescription electronically if permitted by federal law. Such prescriptions 

must contain the date of the oral authorization. 

(d)Each written prescription prescribed by a practitioner in this state for a controlled 

substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule III, or Schedule IV must include both a written and a 

numerical notation of the quantity of the controlled substance prescribed on the face of the 

prescription and a notation of the date, with the abbreviated month written out on the face of the 

prescription. A pharmacist may, upon verification by the prescriber, document any information 

required by this paragraph. If the prescriber is not available to verify a prescription, the 

pharmacist may dispense the controlled substance but may insist that the person to whom the 

controlled substance is dispensed provide valid photographic identification. If a prescription 

includes a numerical notation of the quantity of the controlled substance or date, but does not 

include the quantity or date written out in textual format, the pharmacist may dispense the 

controlled substance without verification by the prescriber of the quantity or date if the pharmacy 

previously dispensed another prescription for the person to whom the prescription was written. 

(e)A pharmacist may not dispense more than a 30-day supply of a controlled substance listed 

in Schedule III upon an oral prescription issued in this state. 

(f)A pharmacist may not knowingly fill a prescription that has been forged for a controlled 

substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule Ill, or Schedule IV. 

(3)Notwithstanding subsection (1), a pharmacist may dispense a one-time emergency refill of 

up to a 72-hour supply of the prescribed medication for any medicinal drug other than a medicinal 

drug listed in Schedule II, in compliance with the provisions of s. 465.0275. 

(4)The legal owner of any stock of controlled substances in a pharmacy, upon discontinuance 

of dealing in controlled substances, may sell said stock to a manufacturer, wholesaler, or 

pharmacy. Such controlled substances may be sold only upon an order form, when such an order 

form is required for sale by the drug abuse laws of the United States or this state, or regulations 

pursuant thereto. 



History.—s. 4, ch. 73-331; s. 2, ch. 75-18; s. 12, ch. 79-12; s. 2, ch. 90-2; s. 1436, ch. 97-102; s. 301, ch. 99-8; s. 

2, ch. 2007-156; s. 5, ch. 2009-202. 

893.O5Practitioners and persons administering controlled substances in their absence.— 

(1)A practitioner, in good faith and in the course of his or her professional practice only, may 

prescribe, administer, dispense, mix, or otherwise prepare a controlled substance, or the 

practitioner may cause the same to be administered by a licensed nurse or an intern practitioner 

under his or her direction and supervision only. A veterinarian may so prescribe, administer, 

dispense, mix, or prepare a controlled substance for use on animals only, and may cause it to be 

administered by an assistant or orderly under the veterinarian's direction and supervision only. 

(2)When any controlled substance is dispensed by a practitioner, there shall be affixed to the 

original container in which the controlled substance is delivered a label on which appears: 

(a)The date of delivery. 

(b)The directions for use of such controlled substance. 

(c)The name and address of such practitioner. 

(d)The name of the patient and, if such controlled substance is prescribed for an animal, a 

statement describing the species of the animal. 

(e)A clear, concise warning that it is a crime to transfer the controlled substance to any 

person other than the patient for whom prescribed. 

(3)Any person who obtains from a practitioner or the practitioner's agent, or pursuant to 

prescription, any controlled substance for administration to a patient during the absence of such 

practitioner shall return to such practitioner any unused portion of such controlled substance when 

it is no longer required by the patient. 

History.—s. 5, ch. 73-331; s. 1437, ch. 97-102. 

893 .O55Prescription drug monitoring program.— 

(1 )As used in this section, the term: 

(a)"Patient advisory report" or "advisory report" means information provided by the 

department in writing, or as determined by the department, to a prescriber, dispenser, pharmacy, 

or patient concerning the dispensing of controlled substances. All advisory reports are for 

informational purposes only and impose no obligations of any nature or any legal duty on a 

prescriber, dispenser, pharmacy, or patient. The patient advisory report shall be provided in 

accordance with s. 893.13(7)(a)8. The advisory reports issued by the department are not subject to 

discovery or introduction into evidence in any civil or administrative action against a prescriber, 

dispenser, pharmacy, or patient arising out of matters that are the subject of the report; and a 

person who participates in preparing, reviewing, issuing, or any other activity related to an 

advisory report may not be permitted or required to testify in any such civil action as to any 

findings, recommendations, evaluations, opinions, or other actions taken in connection with 





also comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) as it pertains to 

protected health information (PHI), electronic protected health information (EPHI), and all other 

relevant state and federal privacy and security laws and regulations. The department shall 

establish policies and procedures as appropriate regarding the reporting, accessing the database, 

evaluation, management, development, implementation, operation, storage, and security of 

information within the system. The reporting of prescribed controlled substances shall include a 

dispensing transaction with a dispenser pursuant to chapter 465 or through a dispensing transaction 

to an individual or address in this state with a pharmacy that is not located in this state but that is 

otherwise subject to the jurisdiction of this state as to that dispensing transaction. The reporting 

of patient advisory reports refers only to reports to patients, pharmacies, and practitioners. 

Separate reports that contain patient prescription history information and that are not patient 

advisory reports are provided to persons and entities as authorized in paragraphs (7)(b) and (c) and 

s. 893.0551. 

(b)The department, when the direct support organization receives at least $20,000 in nonstate 

moneys or the state receives at least $20,000 in federal grants for the prescription drug monitoring 

program, shall adopt rules as necessary concerning the reporting, accessing the database, 

evaluation, management, development, implementation, operation, security, and storage of 

information within the system, including rules for when patient advisory reports are provided to 

pharmacies and prescribers. The patient advisory report shall be provided in accordance with s. 

893.13(7)(a)8. The department shall work with the professional health care licensure boards, such 

as the Board of Medicine, the Board of Osteopathic Medicine, and the Board of Pharmacy; other 

appropriate organizations, such as the Florida Pharmacy Association, the Florida Medical 

Association, the Florida Retail Federation, and the Florida Osteopathic Medical Association, 

including those relating to pain management; and the Attorney General, the Department of Law 

Enforcement, and the Agency for Health Care Administration to develop rules appropriate for the 

prescription drug monitoring program. 

(c)All dispensers and prescribers subject to these reporting requirements shall be notified by 

the department of the implementation date for such reporting requirements. 

(d)The program manager shall work with professional health care licensure boards and the 

stakeholders listed in paragraph (b) to develop rules appropriate for identifying indicators of 

controlled substance abuse. 

(3)The pharmacy dispensing the controlled substance and each prescriber who directly 

dispenses a controlled substance shall submit to the electronic system, by a procedure and in a 

format established by the department and consistent with an ASAP-approved format, the following 

information for inclusion in the database: 

(a)The name of the prescribing practitioner, the practitioner's federal Drug Enforcement 



Administration registration number, the practitioner's National Provider Identification (NPI) or 

other appropriate identifier, and the date of the prescription. 

(b)The date the prescription was filled and the method of payment, such as cash by an 

individual, insurance coverage through a third party, or Medicaid payment. This paragraph does not 

authorize the department to include individual credit card numbers or other account numbers in 

the database. 

(c)The full name, address, and date of birth of the person for whom the prescription was 

written. 

(d)The name, national drug code, quantity, and strength of the controlled substance 

dispensed. 

(e)The full name, federal Drug Enforcement Administration registration number, and address 

of the pharmacy or other location from which the controlled substance was dispensed. If the 

controlled substance was dispensed by a practitioner other than a pharmacist, the practitioner's 

full name, federal Drug Enforcement Administration registration number, and address. 

(f)The name of the pharmacy or practitioner, other than a pharmacist, dispensing the 

controlled substance and the practitioner's National Provider Identification (NPI). 

(g)Other appropriate identifying information as determined by department rule. 

(4)Each time a controlled substance is dispensed to an individual, the controlled substance 

shall be reported to the department through the system as soon thereafter as possible, but not 

more than 7 days after the date the controlled substance is dispensed unless an extension is 

approved by the department for cause as determined by rule. A dispenser must meet the reporting 

requirements of this section by providing the required information concerning each controlled 

substance that it dispensed in a department-approved, secure methodology and format. Such 

approved formats may include, but are not limited to, submission via the Internet, on a disc, or by 

use of regular mail. 

(5)When the following acts of dispensing or administering occur, the following are exempt 

from reporting under this section for that specific act of dispensing or administration: 

(a)A health care practitioner when administering a controlled substance directly to a patient if 

the amount of the controlled substance is adequate to treat the patient during that particular 

treatment session. 

(b)A pharmacist or health care practitioner when administering a controlled substance to a 

patient or resident receiving care as a patient at a hospital, nursing home, ambulatory surgical 

center, hospice, or intermediate care facility for the developmentally disabled which is licensed in 

this state. 

(c)A practitioner when administering or dispensing a controlled substance in the health care 

system of the Department of Corrections. 



(d)A practitioner when administering a controlled substance in the emergency room of a 

licensed hospital. 

(e)A health care practitioner when administering or dispensing a controlled substance to a 

person under the age of 16. 

(f)A pharmacist or a dispensing practitioner when dispensing a one-time, 72-hour emergency 

resupply of a controlled substance to a patient. 

(6)The department may establish when to suspend and when to resume reporting information 

during a state-declared or nationally declared disaster. 

(7)(a)A practitioner or pharmacist who dispenses a controlled substance must submit the 

information required by this section in an electronic or other method in an ASAP format approved 

by rule of the department unless otherwise provided in this section. The cost to the dispenser in 

submitting the information required by this section may not be material or extraordinary. Costs not 

considered to be material or extraordinary include, but are not limited to, regular postage, 

electronic media, regular electronic mail, and facsimile charges. 

(b)A pharmacy, prescriber, or dispenser shall have access to information in the prescription 

drug monitoring program's database which relates to a patient of that pharmacy, prescriber, or 

dispenser in a manner established by the department as needed for the purpose of reviewing the 

patient's controlled substance prescription history. Other access to the program's database shall 

be limited to the program's manager and to the designated program and support staff, who may 

act only at the direction of the program manager or, in the absence of the program manager, as 

authorized. Access by the program manager or such designated staff is for prescription drug 

program management only or for management of the program's database and its system in support 

of the requirements of this section and in furtherance of the prescription drug monitoring program. 

Confidential and exempt information in the database shall be released only as provided in 

paragraph (c) and s. 893.0551. The program manager, designated program and support staff who 

act at the direction of or in the absence of the program manager, and any individual who has 

similar access regarding the management of the database from the prescription drug monitoring 

program shall submit fingerprints to the department for background screening. The department 

shall follow the procedure established by the Department of Law Enforcement to request a 

statewide criminal history record check and to request that the Department of Law Enforcement 

forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for a national criminal history 

record check. 

(c)The following entities shall not be allowed direct access to information in the prescription 

drug monitoring program database but may request from the program manager and, when 

authorized by the program manager, the program manager's program and support staff, 

information that is confidential and exempt under s. 893.0551. Prior to release, the request shall 





received for up to 24 months before purging it from his or her records or maintain it for longer than 

24 months if the information is pertinent to ongoing health care or an active law enforcement 

investigation or prosecution. 

(f)The program manager, upon determining a pattern consistent with the rules established 

under paragraph (2)(d) and having cause to believe a violation of s. 893.13(7)(a)8., (8)(a), or (8)(b) 

has occurred, may provide relevant information to the applicable law enforcement agency. 

(8)To assist in fulfilling program responsibilities, performance measures shall be reported 

annually to the Governor, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the House of 

Representatives by the department each December 1, beginning in 2011. Data that does not 

contain patient, physician, health care practitioner, prescriber, or dispenser identifying 

information may be requested during the year by department employees so that the department 

may undertake public health care and safety initiatives that take advantage of observed trends. 

Performance measures may include, but are not limited to, efforts to achieve the following 

outcomes: 

(a)Reduction of the rate of inappropriate use of prescription drugs through department 

education and safety efforts. 

(b)Reduction of the quantity of pharmaceutical controlled substances obtained by individuals 

attempting to engage in fraud and deceit. 

(c)Increased coordination among partners participating in the prescription drug monitoring 

program. 

(d)Involvement of stakeholders in achieving improved patient health care and safety and 

reduction of prescription drug abuse and prescription drug diversion. 

(9)Any person who willfully and knowingly fails to report the dispensing of a controlled 

substance as required by this section commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(10)All costs incurred by the department in administering the prescription drug monitoring 

program shall be funded through federal grants or private funding applied for or received by the 

state. The department may not commit funds for the monitoring program without ensuring funding 

is available. The prescription drug monitoring program and the implementation thereof are 

contingent upon receipt of the nonstate funding. The department and state government shall 

cooperate with the direct-support organization established pursuant to subsection (11) in seeking 

federal grant funds, other nonstate grant funds, gifts, donations, or other private moneys for the 

department so long as the costs of doing so are not considered material. Nonmaterial costs for this 

purpose include, but are not limited to, the costs of mailing and personnel assigned to research or 

apply for a grant. Notwithstanding the exemptions to competitive-solicitation requirements under 

s. 287.057(3)(f), the department shall comply with the competitive-solicitation requirements under 



s. 287.057 for the procurement of any goods or services required by this section. Funds provided, 

directly or indirectly, by prescription drug manufacturers may not be used to implement the 

program. 

(11 )The department may establish a direct-support organization that has a board consisting of 

at least five members to provide assistance, funding, and promotional support for the activities 

authorized for the prescription drug monitoring program. 

(a)As used in this subsection, the term "direct-support organization" means an organization 

that is: 

1 .A Florida corporation not for profit incorporated under chapter 617, exempted from filing 

fees, and approved by the Department of State. 

2.Organized and operated to conduct programs and activities; raise funds; request and receive 

grants, gifts, and bequests of money; acquire, receive, hold, and invest, in its own name, 

securities, funds, objects of value, or other property, either real or personal; and make 

expenditures or provide funding to or for the direct or indirect benefit of the department in the 

furtherance of the prescription drug monitoring program. 

(b)The direct-support organization is not considered a lobbying firm within the meaning of s. 

11.045. 

(c)The State Surgeon General shall appoint a board of directors for the direct-support 

organization. Members of the board shall serve at the pleasure of the State Surgeon General. The 

State Surgeon General shall provide guidance to members of the board to ensure that moneys 

received by the direct-support organization are not received from inappropriate sources. 

Inappropriate sources include, but are not limited to, donors, grantors, persons, or organizations 

that may monetarily or substantively benefit from the purchase of goods or services by the 

department in furtherance of the prescription drug monitoring program. 

(d)The direct-support organization shall operate under written contract with the department. 

The contract must, at a minimum, provide for: 

1 .Approval of the articles of incorporation and bylaws of the direct-support organization by 

the department. 

2.Submission of an annual budget for the approval of the department. 

3.Certification by the department that the direct-support organization is complying with the 

terms of the contract in a manner consistent with and in furtherance of the goals and purposes of 

the prescription drug monitoring program and in the best interests of the state. Such certification 

must be made annually and reported in the official minutes of a meeting of the direct-support 

organization. 

4.The reversion, without penalty, to the state of all moneys and property held in trust by the 

direct-support organization for the benefit of the prescription drug monitoring program if the 



direct-support organization ceases to exist or if the contract is terminated. 

5.The fiscal year of the direct-support organization, which must begin July 1 of each year and 

end June 30 of the following year. 

6.The disclosure of the material provisions of the contract to donors of gifts, contributions, or 

bequests, including such disclosure on all promotional and fundraising publications, and an 

explanation to such donors of the distinction between the department and the direct-support 

organization. 

7.The direct-support organization's collecting, expending, and providing of funds to the 

department for the development, implementation, and operation of the prescription drug 

monitoring program as described in this section and s. 2, chapter 2009-198, Laws of Florida, as long 

as the task force is authorized. The direct-support organization may collect and expend funds to be 

used for the functions of the direct-support organization's board of directors, as necessary and 

approved by the department. In addition, the direct-support organization may collect and provide 

funding to the department in furtherance of the prescription drug monitoring program by: 

a.Establishing and administering the prescription drug monitoring program's electronic 

database, including hardware and software. 

b.Conducting studies on the efficiency and effectiveness of the program to include feasibility 

studies as described in subsection (13). 

c.Providing funds for future enhancements of the program within the intent of this section. 

d.Providing user training of the prescription drug monitoring program, including distribution of 

materials to promote public awareness and education and conducting workshops or other meetings, 

for health care practitioners, pharmacists, and others as appropriate. 

e.Providing funds for travel expenses. 

f.Providing funds for administrative costs, including personnel, audits, facilities, and 

equipment. 

g.Fulfilling all other requirements necessary to implement and operate the program as 

outlined in this section. 

(e)The activities of the direct-support organization must be consistent with the goals and 

mission of the department, as determined by the department, and in the best interests of the 

state. The direct-support organization must obtain a written approval from the department for any 

activities in support of the prescription drug monitoring program before undertaking those 

activities. 

(f)The department may permit, without charge, appropriate use of administrative services, 

property, and facilities of the department by the direct-support organization, subject to this 

section. The use must be directly in keeping with the approved purposes of the direct-support 

organization and may not be made at times or places that would unreasonably interfere with 



opportunities for the public to use such facilities for established purposes. Any moneys received 

from rentals of facilities and properties managed by the department may be held in a separate 

depository account in the name of the direct-support organization and subject to the provisions of 

the letter of agreement with the department. The letter of agreement must provide that any funds 

held in the separate depository account in the name of the direct-support organization must revert 

to the department if the direct-support organization is no longer approved by the department to 

operate in the best interests of the state. 

(g)The department may adopt rules under s. 120.54 to govern the use of administrative 

services, property, or facilities of the department or office by the direct-support organization. 

(h)The department may not permit the use of any administrative services, property, or 

facilities of the state by a direct-support organization if that organization does not provide equal 

membership and employment opportunities to all persons regardless of race, color, religion, 

gender, age, or national origin. 

(i)The direct-support organization shall provide for an independent annual financial audit in 

accordance with s. 215.981. Copies of the audit shall be provided to the department and the Office 

of Policy and Budget in the Executive Office of the Governor. 

(j)The direct-support organization may not exercise any power under s. 61 7.0302(12) or (16). 

(12)A prescriber or dispenser may have access to the information under this section which 

relates to a patient of that prescriber or dispenser as needed for the purpose of reviewing the 

patient's controlled drug prescription history. A prescriber or dispenser acting in good faith is 

immune from any civil, criminal, or administrative liability that might otherwise be incurred or 

imposed for receiving or using information from the prescription drug monitoring program. This 

subsection does not create a private cause of action, and a person may not recover damages 

against a prescriber or dispenser authorized to access information under this subsection for 

accessing or failing to access such information. 

(13)10 the extent that funding is provided for such purpose through federal or private grants 

or gifts and other types of available moneys, the department shall study the feasibility of 

enhancing the prescription drug monitoring program for the purposes of public health initiatives 

and statistical reporting that respects the privacy of the patient, the prescriber, and the dispenser. 

Such a study shall be conducted in order to further improve the quality of health care services and 

safety by improving the prescribing and dispensing practices for prescription drugs, taking 

advantage of advances in technology, reducing duplicative prescriptions and the overprescribing of 

prescription drugs, and reducing drug abuse. The requirements of the National All Schedules 

Prescription Electronic Reporting (NASPER) Act are authorized in order to apply for federal NASPER 

funding. In addition, the direct-support organization shall provide funding for the department to 

conduct training for health care practitioners and other appropriate persons in using the monitoring 



program to support the program enhancements. 

(14)A pharmacist, pharmacy, or dispensing health care practitioner or his or her agent, before 

releasing a controlled substance to any person not known to such dispenser, shall require the 

person purchasing, receiving, or otherwise acquiring the controlled substance to present valid 

photographic identification or other verification of his or her identity to the dispenser. If the 

person does not have proper identification, the dispenser may verify the validity of the prescription 

and the identity of the patient with the prescriber or his or her authorized agent. Verification of 

health plan eligibility through a real-time inquiry or adjudication system will be considered to be 

proper identification. This subsection does not apply in an institutional setting or to a long-term 

care facility, including, but not limited to, an assisted living facility or a hospital to which patients 

are admitted. As used in this subsection, the term "proper identification" means an identification 

that is issued by a state or the Federal Government containing the person's photograph, printed 

name, and signature or a document considered acceptable under 8 C.F.R. s. 274a.2(b)(1 )(v)(A) and 

(B). 

(15)The Agency for Health Care Administration shall continue the promotion of electronic 

prescribing by health care practitioners, health care facilities, and pharmacies under s. 408.0611. 

(16)The department shall adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to administer the 

provisions of this section, which shall include as necessary the reporting, accessing, evaluation, 

management, development, implementation, operation, and storage of information within the 

monitoring program's system. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2009-198; s. 41, ch. 2010-151; s. 12, ch. 2010-211; s. 50, ch. 2011-4; s. 23, ch. 2011-141; s. 86, 

ch. 2012-5. 

893.O55lPubIic records exemption for the prescription drug monitoring program.— 

(1 )For purposes of this section, the term: 

(a)"Active investigation" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(b)"Dispenser" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(c)"Health care practitioner" or "practitioner" has the same meaning as provided in s. 

893.055. 

(d)"Health care regulatory board" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(e)"Law enforcement agency" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(f)"Pharmacist" means any person licensed under chapter 465 to practice the profession of 

pharmacy. 

(g)"Pharmacy" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(h)"Prescriber" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(2)The following information of a patient or patient's agent, a health care practitioner, a 

dispenser, an employee of the practitioner who is acting on behalf of and at the direction of the 



practitioner, a pharmacist, or a pharmacy that is contained in records held by the department 

under s. 893.055 is confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State 

Constitution: 

(a)Name. 

(b)Address. 

(c)Telephone number. 

(d)Insurance plan number. 

(e)Government-issued identification number. 

(f)Provider number. 

(g)Drug Enforcement Administration number. 

(h)Any other unique identifying information or number. 

(3)The department shall disclose such confidential and exempt information to the following 

entities after using a verification process to ensure the legitimacy of that person's or entity's 

request for the information: 

(a)The Attorney General and his or her designee when working on Medicaid fraud cases 

involving prescription drugs or when the Attorney General has initiated a review of specific 

identifiers of Medicaid fraud regarding prescription drugs. The Attorney General or his or her 

designee may disclose the confidential and exempt information received from the department to a 

criminal justice agency as defined in s. 119.011 as part of an active investigation that is specific to 

a violation of prescription drug abuse or prescription drug diversion law as it relates to controlled 

substances. The Attorney General's Medicaid fraud investigators may not have direct access to the 

department's database. 

(b)The department's relevant health care regulatory boards responsible for the licensure, 

regulation, or discipline of a practitioner, pharmacist, or other person who is authorized to 

prescribe, administer, or dispense controlled substances and who is involved in a specific 

controlled substances investigation for prescription drugs involving a designated person. The health 

care regulatory boards may request information from the department but may not have direct 

access to its database. The health care regulatory boards may provide such information to a law 

enforcement agency pursuant to ss. 456.066 and 456.073. 

(c)A law enforcement agency that has initiated an active investigation involving a specific 

violation of law regarding prescription drug abuse or diversion of prescribed controlled substances. 

The law enforcement agency may disclose the confidential and exempt information received from 

the department to a criminal justice agency as defined ins. 119.011 as part of an active 

investigation that is specific to a violation of prescription drug abuse or prescription drug diversion 

law as it relates to controlled substances. A law enforcement agency may request information from 

the department but may not have direct access to its database. 



(d)A health care practitioner who certifies that the information is necessary to provide 

medical treatment to a current patient in accordance with ss. 893.05 and 893.055. 

(e)A pharmacist who certifies that the requested information will be used to dispense 

controlled substances to a current patient in accordance with ss. 893.04 and 893.055. 

(f)A patient or the legal guardian or designated health care surrogate for an incapacitated 

patient, if applicable, making a request as provided in s. 893.055(7)(c)4. 

(g)The patient's pharmacy, prescriber, or dispenser who certifies that the information is 

necessary to provide medical treatment to his or her current patient in accordance with s. 893.055. 

(4)The department shall disclose such confidential and exempt information to the applicable 

law enforcement agency in accordance with s. 893.055(7)(f). The law enforcement agency may 

disclose the confidential and exempt information received from the department to a criminal 

justice agency as defined in s. 119.011 as part of an active investigation that is specific to a 

violation of s. 893.13(7)(a)8., s. 893.13(8)(a), or s. 893.13(8)(b). 

(5)Any agency or person who obtains such confidential and exempt information pursuant to 

this section must maintain the confidential and exempt status of that information. 

(6)Any person who willfully and knowingly violates this section commits a felony of the third 

degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(7)This section is subject to the Open Government Sunset Review Act in accordance with s. 

119.15 and shall stand repealed on October 2, 2014, unless reviewed and saved from repeal 

through reenactment by the Legislature. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2009-197; s. 13, ch. 2010-211; s. 51, ch. 2011-4. 

893.O6Distribution of controlled substances; order forms; labeling and packaging 

requirements.— 

(1 )Controlled substances in Schedules I and II shall be distributed by a duly licensed 

manufacturer, distributor, or wholesaler to a duly licensed manufacturer, wholesaler, distributor, 

practitioner, pharmacy, as defined in chapter 465, hospital, or laboratory only pursuant to an order 

form. It shall be deemed a compliance with this subsection if the parties to the transaction have 

complied with federal law respecting the use of order forms. 

(2)Possession or control of controlled substances obtained as authorized by this section shall 

be lawful if in the regular course of business, occupation, profession, employment, or duty. 

(3)A person in charge of a hospital or laboratory or in the employ of this state or of any other 

state, or of any political subdivision thereof, and a master or other proper officer of a ship or 

aircraft, who obtains controlled substances under the provisions of this section or otherwise, shall 

not administer, dispense, or otherwise use such controlled substances within this state, except 

within the scope of her or his employment or official duty, and then only for scientific or medicinal 

purposes and subject to the provisions of this chapter. 



(4)It shall be unlawful to distribute a controlled substance in a commercial container unless 

such container bears a label showing the name and address of the manufacturer, the quantity, 

kind, and form of controlled substance contained therein, and the identifying symbol for such 

substance, as required by federal law. No person except a pharmacist, for the purpose of 

dispensing a prescription, or a practitioner, for the purpose of dispensing a controlled substance to 

a patient, shall alter, deface, or remove any labels so affixed. 

History.—s. 6, ch. 73-331; s. 1438, ch. 97-102. 

893.O65Counterfeit-resistant prescription blanks for controlled substances listed in 

Schedule II, Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V.—The Department of Health shall develop 

and adopt by rule the form and content for a counterfeit-resistant prescription blank which must 

be used by practitioners for the purpose of prescribing a controlled substance listed in Schedule II, 

Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V pursuant to s. 456.42. The Department of Health may 

require the prescription blanks to be printed on distinctive, watermarked paper and to bear the 

preprinted name, address, and category of professional licensure of the practitioner and that 

practitioner's federal registry number for controlled substances. The prescription blanks may not 

be transferred. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 2007-156; s. 24, ch. 2011-141. 

893.O7Records.— 

(1 )Every person who engages in the manufacture, compounding, mixing, cultivating, growing, 

or by any other process producing or preparing, or in the dispensing, importation, or, as a 

wholesaler, distribution, of controlled substances shall: 

(a)On January 1, 1974, or as soon thereafter as any person first engages in such activity, and 

every second year thereafter, make a complete and accurate record of all stocks of controlled 

substances on hand. The inventory may be prepared on the regular physical inventory date which is 

nearest to, and does not vary by more than 6 months from, the biennial date that would otherwise 

apply. As additional substances are designated for control under this chapter, they shall be 

inventoried as provided for in this subsection. 

(b)On and after January 1, 1974, maintain, on a current basis, a complete and accurate record 

of each substance manufactured, received, sold, delivered, or otherwise disposed of by him or her, 

except that this subsection shall not require the maintenance of a perpetual inventory. 

Compliance with the provisions of federal law pertaining to the keeping of records of controlled 

substances shall be deemed a compliance with the requirements of this subsection. 

(2)The record of controlled substances received shall in every case show: 

(a)The date of receipt. 

(b)The name and address of the person from whom received. 

(c)The kind and quantity of controlled substances received. 



(3)The record of all controlled substances sold, administered, dispensed, or otherwise 

disposed of shall show: 

(a)The date of selling, administering, or dispensing. 

(b)The correct name and address of the person to whom or for whose use, or the owner and 

species of animal for which, sold, administered, or dispensed. 

(c)The kind and quantity of controlled substances sold, administered, or dispensed. 

(4)Every inventory or record required by this chapter, including prescription records, shall be 

maintained: 

(a)Separately from all other records of the registrant, or 

(b)Alternatively, in the case of Schedule III, IV, or V controlled substances, in such form that 

information required by this chapter is readily retrievable from the ordinary business records of the 

registrant. 

In either case, the records described in this subsection shall be kept and made available for a 

period of at least 2 years for inspection and copying by law enforcement officers whose duty it is to 

enforce the laws of this state relating to controlled substances. Law enforcement officers are not 

required to obtain a subpoena, court order, or search warrant in order to obtain access to or copies 

of such records. 

(5)Each person described in subsection (1) shall: 

(a)Maintain a record which shall contain a detailed list of controlled substances lost, 

destroyed, or stolen, if any; the kind and quantity of such controlled substances; and the date of 

the discovering of such loss, destruction, or theft. 

(b)In the event of the discovery of the theft or significant loss of controlled substances, report 

such theft or significant loss to the sheriff of that county within 24 hours after discovery. A person 

who fails to report a theft or significant loss of a substance listed in s. 893.03(3), (4), or (5) within 

24 hours after discovery as required in this paragraph commits a misdemeanor of the second 

degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. A person who fails to report a theft or 

significant loss of a substance listed in s. 893.03(2) within 24 hours after discovery as required in 

this paragraph commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or 

s. 775.083. 

History.—s. 7, ch. 73-331; s. 1439, ch. 97-102; s. 25, ch. 2011-141. 

893.O8Exceptions.— 

(1 )The following may be distributed at retail without a prescription, but only by a registered 

pharmacist: 

(a)Any compound, mixture, or preparation described in Schedule V. 

(b)Any compound, mixture, or preparation containing any depressant or stimulant substance 

described in s. 893.03(2)(a) or (c) except any amphetamine drug or sympathomimetic amine drug 



or compound designated as a Schedule II controlled substance pursuant to this chapter; in s. 

893.03(3)(a); or in Schedule IV, if: 

1 .The compound, mixture, or preparation contains one or more active medicinal ingredients 

not having depressant or stimulant effect on the central nervous system, and 

2.Such ingredients are included therein in such combinations, quantity, proportion, or 

concentration as to vitiate the potential for abuse of the controlled substances which do have a 

depressant or stimulant effect on the central nervous system. 

(2)No compound, mixture, or preparation may be dispensed under subsection (1) unless such 

substance may, under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, be lawfully sold at retail without 

a prescription. 

(3)The exemptions authorized by this section shall be subject to the following conditions: 

(a)The compounds, mixtures, and preparations referred to in subsection (1) may be dispensed 

to persons under age 18 only on prescription. A bound volume must be maintained as a record of 

sale at retail of excepted compounds, mixtures, and preparations, and the pharmacist must require 

suitable identification from every unknown purchaser. 

(b)Such compounds, mixtures, and preparations shall be sold by the pharmacist in good faith 

as a medicine and not for the purpose of evading the provisions of this chapter. The pharmacist 

may, in his or her discretion, withhold sale to any person whom the pharmacist reasonably believes 

is attempting to purchase excepted compounds, mixtures, or preparations for the purpose of 

abuse. 

(c)The total quantity of controlled substance listed in Schedule V which may be sold to any 

one purchaser within a given 48-hour period shall not exceed 120 milligrams of codeine, 60 

milligrams dihydrocodeine, 30 milligrams of ethyl morphine, or 240 milligrams of opium. 

(d)Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit the kind and quantity of any controlled 

substance that may be prescribed, administered, or dispensed to any person, or for the use of any 

person or animal, when it is prescribed, administered, or dispensed in compliance with the general 

provisions of this chapter. 

(4)The dextrorotatory isomer of 3-methoxy-n-methylmorphinan and its salts 

(dextromethorphan) shall not be deemed to be included in any schedule by reason of enactment of 

this chapter. 

History.—s. 8, ch. 73-331; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 6, ch. 80-354; s. 4, ch. 89-281; s. 2, ch. 93-92; s. 1440, ch. 97-102; 

s. 105, ch. 97-264; s. 12, ch. 99-186. 

893.O9Enforcement.— 

(1 )The Department of Law Enforcement, all state agencies which regulate professions or 

institutions affected by the provisions of this chapter, and all peace officers of the state shall 

enforce all provisions of this chapter except those specifically delegated, and shall cooperate with 



all agencies charged with the enforcement of the laws of the United States, this state, and all 

other states relating to controlled substances. 

(2)Any agency authorized to enforce this chapter shall have the right to institute an action in 

its own name to enjoin the violation of any of the provisions of this chapter. Said action for an 

injunction shall be in addition to any other action, proceeding, or remedy authorized by law. 

(3)All law enforcement officers whose duty it is to enforce this chapter shall have authority to 

administer oaths in connection with their official duties, and any person making a material false 

statement under oath before such law enforcement officers shall be deemed guilty of perjury and 

subject to the same punishment as prescribed for perjury. 

(4)It shall be unlawful and punishable as provided in chapter 843 for any person to interfere 

with any such law enforcement officer in the performance of the officer's official duties. It shall 

also be unlawful for any person falsely to represent himself or herself to be authorized to enforce 

the drug abuse laws of this state, the United States, or any other state. 

(5)No civil or criminal liability shall be imposed by virtue of this chapter upon any person 

whose duty it is to enforce the provisions of this chapter, by reason of his or her being lawfully 

engaged in the enforcement of any law or municipal ordinance relating to controlled substances. 

History.—s. 9, ch. 73-331; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 30, ch. 79-8; s. 1441, ch. 97-102. 

893.lOBurden of proof; photograph or video recording of evidence.— 

(1 )It is not necessary for the state to negative any exemption or exception set forth in this 

chapter in any indictment, information, or other pleading or in any trial, hearing, or other 

proceeding under this chapter, and the burden of going forward with the evidence with respect to 

any exemption or exception is upon the person claiming its benefit. 

(2)In the prosecution of an offense involving the manufacture of a controlled substance, a 

photograph or video recording of the manufacturing equipment used in committing the offense, 

including, but not limited to, grow lights, growing trays, and chemical fertilizers, may be 

introduced as competent evidence of the existence and use of the equipment and is admissible in 

the prosecution of the offense to the same extent as if the property were introduced as evidence. 

(3)After a law enforcement agency documents the manufacturing equipment by photography 

or video recording, the manufacturing equipment may be destroyed on site and left in disrepair. 

The law enforcement agency destroying the equipment is immune from civil liability for the 

destruction of the equipment. The destruction of the equipment must be recorded by the 

supervising law enforcement officer in the manner described ins. 893.12(1)(a), and records must 

be maintained for 24 months. 

History.—s. 10, ch. 73-331; s. 1442, ch. 97-102; s. 3, ch. 2008-184; s. 19, ch. 2010-117. 

893.101 Legislative findings and intent.— 

(1 )The Legislature finds that the cases of Scott v. State, Slip Opinion No. 5C94701 (Fla. 2002) 



and Chicone v. State, 684 So.2d 736 (Fla. 1996), holding that the state must prove that the 

defendant knew of the illicit nature of a controlled substance found in his or her actual or 

constructive possession, were contrary to legislative intent. 

(2)The Legislature finds that knowledge of the illicit nature of a controlled substance is not an 

element of any offense under this chapter. Lack of knowledge of the illicit nature of a controlled 

substance is an affirmative defense to the offenses of this chapter. 

(3)In those instances in which a defendant asserts the affirmative defense described in this 

section, the possession of a controlled substance, whether actual or constructive, shall give rise to 

a permissive presumption that the possessor knew of the illicit nature of the substance. It is the 

intent of the Legislature that, in those cases where such an affirmative defense is raised, the jury 

shall be instructed on the permissive presumption provided in this subsection. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2002-258. 

893.lo5Testing and destruction of seized substances.— 

(1 )Any controlled substance or listed chemical seized as evidence may be sample tested and 

weighed by the seizing agency after the seizure. Any such sample and the analysis thereof shall be 

admissible into evidence in any civil or criminal action for the purpose of proving the nature, 

composition, and weight of the substance seized. In addition, the seizing agency may photograph 

or videotape, for use at trial, the controlled substance or listed chemical seized. 

(2)Controlled substances or listed chemicals that are not retained for sample testing as 

provided in subsection (1) may be destroyed pursuant to a court order issued in accordance with s. 

893.12. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 82-88; s. 3, ch. 91 -279. 

893.1 iSuspension, revocation, and reinstatement of business and professional licenses.— 

For the purposes of s. 120.60(6), any conviction in any court reported to the Comprehensive Case 

Information System of the Florida Association of Court Clerks and Comptrollers, Inc., for the sale 

of, or trafficking in, a controlled substance or for conspiracy to sell, or traffic in, a controlled 

substance constitutes an immediate serious danger to the public health, safety, or welfare, and is 

grounds for disciplinary action by the licensing state agency. A state agency shall initiate an 

immediate emergency suspension of an individual professional license issued by the agency, in 

compliance with the procedures for summary suspensions in s. 120.60(6), upon the agency's 

findings of the licensee's conviction in any court reported to the Comprehensive Case Information 

System of the Florida Association of Court Clerks and Comptrollers, Inc., for the sale of, or 

trafficking in, a controlled substance, or for conspiracy to sell, or traffic in, a controlled substance. 

Before renewing any professional license, a state agency that issues a professional license must use 

the Comprehensive Case Information System of the Florida Association of Court Clerks and 

Comptrollers, Inc., to obtain information relating to any conviction for the sale of, or trafficking in, 



a controlled substance or for conspiracy to sell, or traffic in, a controlled substance. The clerk of 

court shall provide electronic access to each state agency at no cost and also provide certified 

copies of the judgment upon request to the agency. Upon a showing by any such convicted 

defendant whose professional license has been suspended or revoked pursuant to this section that 

his or her civil rights have been restored or upon a showing that the convicted defendant meets the 

following criteria, the agency head may reinstate or reactivate such license when: 

(1 )The person has complied with the conditions of paragraphs (a) and (b) which shall be 

monitored by the Department of Corrections while the person is under any supervisory sanction. If 

the person fails to comply with provisions of these paragraphs by either failing to maintain 

treatment or by testing positive for drug use, the department shall notify the licensing agency, 

which shall revoke the license. The person under supervision may: 

(a)Seek evaluation and enrollment in, and once enrolled maintain enrollment in until 

completion, a drug treatment and rehabilitation program which is approved or regulated by the 

Department of Children and Family Services. The treatment and rehabilitation program shall be 

specified by: 

1 .The court, in the case of court-ordered supervisory sanctions; 

2.The Parole Commission, in the case of parole, control release, or conditional release; or 

3.The Department of Corrections, in the case of imprisonment or any other supervision 

required by law. 

(b)Submit to periodic urine drug testing pursuant to procedures prescribed by the Department 

of Corrections. If the person is indigent, the costs shall be paid by the Department of Corrections; 

or 

(2)The person has successfully completed an appropriate program under the Correctional 

Education Program. 

(3)As used in this section, the term "professional license" includes any license, permit, or 

certificate that authorizes a person to practice his or her profession. However, the term does not 

include any of the taxes, fees, or permits regulated, controlled, or administered by the 

Department of Revenue in accordance with s. 213.05. 

History.—s. 11, ch. 73-331; s. 1, ch. 77-117; s. 19, ch. 78-95; s. 3, ch. 90-266; s. 126, ch. 91-112; s. 14, ch. 95- 

325; s. 1443, ch. 97-102; s. 302, ch. 99-8; s. 18, ch. 2012-100. 

893.1 2Contraband; seizure, forfeiture, sale.— 

(1 )All substances controlled by this chapter and all listed chemicals, which substances or 

chemicals are handled, delivered, possessed, or distributed contrary to any provisions of this 

chapter, and all such controlled substances or listed chemicals the lawful possession of which is not 

established or the title to which cannot be ascertained, are declared to be contraband, are subject 

to seizure and confiscation by any person whose duty it is to enforce the provisions of the chapter, 



and shall be disposed of as follows: 

(a)Except as in this section otherwise provided, the court having jurisdiction shall order such 

controlled substances or listed chemicals forfeited and destroyed. A record of the place where said 

controlled substances or listed chemicals were seized, of the kinds and quantities of controlled 

substances or listed chemicals destroyed, and of the time, place, and manner of destruction shall 

be kept, and a return under oath reporting said destruction shall be made to the court by the 

officer who destroys them. 

(b)Upon written application by the Department of Health, the court by whom the forfeiture of 

such controlled substances or listed chemicals has been decreed may order the delivery of any of 

them to said department for distribution or destruction as hereinafter provided. 

(c)Upon application by any hospital or laboratory within the state not operated for private 

gain, the department may, in its discretion, deliver any controlled substances or listed chemicals 

that have come into its custody by authority of this section to the applicant for medical use. The 

department may from time to time deliver excess stocks of such controlled substances or listed 

chemicals to the United States Drug Enforcement Administration or destroy same. 

(d)The department shall keep a full and complete record of all controlled substances or listed 

chemicals received and of all controlled substances or listed chemicals disposed of, showing: 

1 .The exact kinds, quantities, and forms of such controlled substances or listed chemicals; 

2.The persons from whom received and to whom delivered; 

3.By whose authority received, delivered, and destroyed; and 

4.The dates of the receipt, disposal, or destruction, 

which record shall be open to inspection by all persons charged with the enforcement of federal 

and state drug abuse laws. 

(2)(a)Any vessel, vehicle, aircraft, or drug paraphernalia as defined in s. 893.145 which has 

been or is being used in violation of any provision of this chapter or in, upon, or by means of which 

any violation of this chapter has taken or is taking place may be seized and forfeited as provided by 

the Florida Contraband Forfeiture Act. 

(b)All real property, including any right, title, leasehold interest, and other interest in the 

whole of any lot or tract of land and any appurtenances or improvements, which real property is 

used, or intended to be used, in any manner or part, to commit or to facilitate the commission of, 

or which real property is acquired with proceeds obtained as a result of, a violation of any 

provision of this chapter related to a controlled substance described in s. 893.03(1) or (2) may be 

seized and forfeited as provided by the Florida Contraband Forfeiture Act except that no property 

shall be forfeited under this paragraph to the extent of an interest of an owner or lienholder by 

reason of any act or omission established by that owner or lienholder to have been committed or 

omitted without the knowledge or consent of that owner or lienholder. 



(c)A11 moneys, negotiable instruments, securities, and other things of value furnished or 

intended to be furnished by any person in exchange for a controlled substance described in s. 

893.03(1) or (2) or a listed chemical in violation of any provision of this chapter, all proceeds 

traceable to such an exchange, and all moneys, negotiable instruments, and securities used or 

intended to be used to facilitate any violation of any provision of this chapter or which are 

acquired with proceeds obtained in violation of any provision of this chapter may be seized and 

forfeited as provided by the Florida Contraband Forfeiture Act, except that no property shall be 

forfeited under this paragraph to the extent of an interest of an owner or lienholder by reason of 

any act or omission established by that owner or lienholder to have been committed or omitted 

without the knowledge or consent of that owner or lienholder. 

(d)All books, records, and research, including formulas, microfilm, tapes, and data which are 

used, or intended for use, or which are acquired with proceeds obtained, in violation of any 

provision of this chapter related to a controlled substance described in s. 893.03(1) or (2) or a 

listed chemical may be seized and forfeited as provided by the Florida Contraband Forfeiture Act. 

(e)If any of the property described in this subsection: 

1.Cannot be located; 

2.Has been transferred to, sold to, or deposited with, a third party; 

3.Has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court; 

4.Has been substantially diminished in value by any act or omission of the defendant; or 

5.Has been commingled with any property which cannot be divided without difficulty, 

the court shall order the forfeiture of any other property of the defendant up to the value of any 

property subject to forfeiture under this subsection. 

(3)Any law enforcement agency is empowered to authorize or designate officers, agents, or 

other persons to carry out the seizure provisions of this section. It shall be the duty of any officer, 

agent, or other person so authorized or designated, or authorized by law, whenever she or he shall 

discover any vessel, vehicle, aircraft, real property or interest in real property, money, negotiable 

instrument, security, book, record, or research which has been or is being used or intended to be 

used, or which is acquired with proceeds obtained, in violation of any of the provisions of this 

chapter, or in, upon, or by means of which any violation of this chapter has taken or is taking 

place, to seize such vessel, vehicle, aircraft, real property or interest in real property, money, 

negotiable instrument, security, book, record, or research and place it in the custody of such 

person as may be authorized or designated for that purpose by the respective law enforcement 

agency pursuant to these provisions. 

(4)The rights of any bona fide holder of a duly recorded mortgage or duly recorded vendor's 

privilege on the property seized under this chapter shall not be affected by the seizure. 

History.—s. 12, ch. 73-331; ss. 10, 11, ch. 74-385; s. 471, ch. 77-147; s. 185, ch. 79-164; s. 4, ch. 80-30; s. 9, ch. 



80-68; s. 5, ch. 89-148; s. 4, ch. 91 -279; s. 1444, ch. 97-102; s. 1, ch. 98-395; s. 303, ch. 99-8; s. 13, ch. 99-186; s. 

21, ch. 2000-320; s. 17, ch. 2004-11. 

893.1 3 Prohibited acts; penalties.— 

(1 )(a)Except as authorized by this chapter and chapter 499, it is unlawful for any person to 

sell, manufacture, or deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled 

substance. Any person who violates this provision with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, 

or s. 775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the third degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(5) commits a misdemeanor of the 

first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(b)Except as provided in this chapter, it is unlawful to sell or deliver in excess of 10 grams of 

any substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) or (1 )(b), or any combination thereof, or any 

mixture containing any such substance. Any person who violates this paragraph commits a felony of 

the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(c)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to sell, manufacture, or 

deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled substance in, on, or 

within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a child care facility as defined in s. 402.302 or a 

public or private elementary, middle, or secondary school between the hours of 6 a.m. and 12 

midnight, or at any time in, on, or within 1,000 feet of real property comprising a state, county, or 

municipal park, a community center, or a publicly owned recreational facility. For the purposes of 

this paragraph, the term "community center" means a facility operated by a nonprofit community- 

based organization for the provision of recreational, social, or educational services to the public. 

Any person who violates this paragraph with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or 

s. 775.084. The defendant must be sentenced to a minimum term of imprisonment of 3 calendar 

years unless the offense was committed within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a child 

care facility as defined in s. 402.302. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.Any other controlled substance, except as lawfully sold, manufactured, or delivered, must 



be sentenced to pay a $500 fine and to serve 100 hours of public service in addition to any other 

penalty prescribed by law. 

This paragraph does not apply to a child care facility unless the owner or operator of the facility 

posts a sign that is not less than 2 square feet in size with a word legend identifying the facility as 

a licensed child care facility and that is posted on the property of the child care facility in a 

conspicuous place where the sign is reasonably visible to the public. 

(d)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to sell, manufacture, or 

deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled substance in, on, or 

within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public or private college, university, or other 

postsecondary educational institution. Any person who violates this paragraph with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or 

s. 775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.Any other controlled substance, except as lawfully sold, manufactured, or delivered, must 

be sentenced to pay a $500 fine and to serve 100 hours of public service in addition to any other 

penalty prescribed by law. 

(e)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to sell, manufacture, or 

deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled substance not 

authorized by law in, on, or within 1 ,000 feet of a physical place for worship at which a church or 

religious organization regularly conducts religious services or within 1 ,000 feet of a convenience 

business as defined in s. 812.171. Any person who violates this paragraph with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or 

s. 775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.Any other controlled substance, except as lawfully sold, manufactured, or delivered, must 

be sentenced to pay a $500 fine and to serve 100 hours of public service in addition to any other 

penalty prescribed by law. 

(f)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to sell, manufacture, or 

deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled substance in, on, or 

within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public housing facility at any time. For purposes 



of this section, the term "real property comprising a public housing facility" means real property, 

as defined in s. 421.03(12), of a public corporation created as a housing authority pursuant to part I 

of chapter 421. Any person who violates this paragraph with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or 

s. 775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.Any other controlled substance, except as lawfully sold, manufactured, or delivered, must 

be sentenced to pay a $500 fine and to serve 100 hours of public service in addition to any other 

penalty prescribed by law. 

(g)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to manufacture 

methamphetamine or phencyclidine, or possess any listed chemical as defined in s. 893.033 in 

violation of s. 893.149 and with intent to manufacture methamphetamine or phencyclidine. If any 

person violates this paragraph and: 

1 .The commission or attempted commission of the crime occurs in a structure or conveyance 

where any child under 16 years of age is present, the person commits a felony of the first degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. In addition, the defendant must be 

sentenced to a minimum term of imprisonment of 5 calendar years. 

2.The commission of the crime causes any child under 16 years of age to suffer great bodily 

harm, the person commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 

775.083, or s. 775.084. In addition, the defendant must be sentenced to a minimum term of 

imprisonment of 10 calendar years. 

(h)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to sell, manufacture, or 

deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled substance in, on, or 

within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising an assisted living facility, as that term is used in 

chapter 429. Any person who violates this paragraph with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4. commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 

775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(2)(a)Except as authorized by this chapter and chapter 499, it is unlawful for any person to 

purchase, or possess with intent to purchase, a controlled substance. Any person who violates this 



provision with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, 

or s. 775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the third degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(5) commits a misdemeanor of the 

first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(b)Except as provided in this chapter, it is unlawful to purchase in excess of 10 grams of any 

substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) or (1 )(b), or any combination thereof, or any 

mixture containing any such substance. Any person who violates this paragraph commits a felony of 

the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)Any person who delivers, without consideration, not more than 20 grams of cannabis, as 

defined in this chapter, commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.082 or s. 775.083. For the purposes of this paragraph, "cannabis" does not include the resin 

extracted from the plants of the genus Cannabis or any compound manufacture, salt, derivative, 

mixture, or preparation of such resin. 

(4)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person 18 years of age or older 

to deliver any controlled substance to a person under the age of 18 years, or to use or hire a person 

under the age of 18 years as an agent or employee in the sale or delivery of such a substance, or to 

use such person to assist in avoiding detection or apprehension for a violation of this chapter. Any 

person who violates this provision with respect to: 

(a)A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), 

or (2)(c)4., commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, 

or s. 775.084. 

(b)A controlled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

Imposition of sentence may not be suspended or deferred, nor shall the person so convicted be 

placed on probation. 

(5)It is unlawful for any person to bring into this state any controlled substance unless the 

possession of such controlled substance is authorized by this chapter or unless such person is 

licensed to do so by the appropriate federal agency. Any person who violates this provision with 

respect to: 

(a)A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), 



or (2)(c)4., commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 

775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(b)A controlled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the third degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(c)A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(5) commits a misdemeanor of the 

first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(6)(a)It is unlawful for any person to be in actual or constructive possession of a controlled 

substance unless such controlled substance was lawfully obtained from a practitioner or pursuant 

to a valid prescription or order of a practitioner while acting in the course of his or her professional 

practice or to be in actual or constructive possession of a controlled substance except as otherwise 

authorized by this chapter. Any person who violates this provision commits a felony of the third 

degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(b)If the offense is the possession of not more than 20 grams of cannabis, as defined in this 

chapter, or 3 grams or less of a controlled substance described ins. 893.03(1)(c)46.-50. and 114.- 

142., the person commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 

or s. 775.083. For the purposes of this subsection, "cannabis" does not include the resin extracted 

from the plants of the genus Cannabis, or any compound manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or 

preparation of such resin, and a controlled substance described in s. 893.03(1 )(c)46.-50. and 114.- 

142. does not include the substance in a powdered form. 

(c)Except as provided in this chapter, it is unlawful to possess in excess of 10 grams of any 

substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) or (1 )(b), or any combination thereof, or any 

mixture containing any such substance. Any person who violates this paragraph commits a felony of 

the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(d)Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary of the laws of this state relating to arrest, a 

law enforcement officer may arrest without warrant any person who the officer has probable cause 

to believe is violating the provisions of this chapter relating to possession of cannabis. 

(7)(a)A person may not: 

1 .Distribute or dispense a controlled substance in violation of this chapter. 

2.Refuse or fail to make, keep, or furnish any record, notification, order form, statement, 

invoice, or information required under this chapter. 

3.Refuse entry into any premises for any inspection or refuse to allow any inspection 

authorized by this chapter. 

4.Distribute a controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1) or (2) except pursuant 

to an order form as required by s. 893.06. 

5.Keep or maintain any store, shop, warehouse, dwelling, building, vehicle, boat, aircraft, or 



other structure or place which is resorted to by persons using controlled substances in violation of 

this chapter for the purpose of using these substances, or which is used for keeping or selling them 

in violation of this chapter. 

6.Use to his or her own personal advantage, or reveal, any information obtained in 

enforcement of this chapter except in a prosecution or administrative hearing for a violation of this 

chapter. 

7.Possess a prescription form which has not been completed and signed by the practitioner 

whose name appears printed thereon, unless the person is that practitioner, is an agent or 

employee of that practitioner, is a pharmacist, or is a supplier of prescription forms who is 

authorized by that practitioner to possess those forms. 

8.Withhold information from a practitioner from whom the person seeks to obtain a controlled 

substance or a prescription for a controlled substance that the person making the request has 

received a controlled substance or a prescription for a controlled substance of like therapeutic use 

from another practitioner within the previous 30 days. 

9.Acquire or obtain, or attempt to acquire or obtain, possession of a controlled substance by 

misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception, or subterfuge. 

10.Affix any false or forged label to a package or receptacle containing a controlled 

substance. 

11 .Furnish false or fraudulent material information in, or omit any material information from, 

any report or other document required to be kept or filed under this chapter or any record 

required to be kept by this chapter. 

12.Store anhydrous ammonia in a container that is not approved by the United States 

Department of Transportation to hold anhydrous ammonia or is not constructed in accordance with 

sound engineering, agricultural, or commercial practices. 

13.With the intent to obtain a controlled substance or combination of controlled substances 

that are not medically necessary for the person or an amount of a controlled substance or 

substances that is not medically necessary for the person, obtain or attempt to obtain from a 

practitioner a controlled substance or a prescription for a controlled substance by 

misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception, subterfuge, or concealment of a material fact. For 

purposes of this subparagraph, a material fact includes whether the person has an existing 

prescription for a controlled substance issued for the same period of time by another practitioner 

or as described in subparagraph 8. 

(b)A health care practitioner, with the intent to provide a controlled substance or combination 

of controlled substances that are not medically necessary to his or her patient or an amount of 

controlled substances that is not medically necessary for his or her patient, may not provide a 

controlled substance or a prescription for a controlled substance by misrepresentation, fraud, 



forgery, deception, subterfuge, or concealment of a material fact. For purposes of this paragraph, 

a material fact includes whether the patient has an existing prescription for a controlled substance 

issued for the same period of time by another practitioner or as described in subparagraph (a)8. 

(c)Any person who violates the provisions of subparagraphs (a)1 . -7. commits a misdemeanor of 

the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083; except that, upon a second or 

subsequent violation, the person commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(d)Any person who violates the provisions of subparagraphs (a)8.-12. commits a felony of the 

third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(e)A person or health care practitioner who violates the provisions of subparagraph (a)13. or 

paragraph (b) commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 

775.083, or s. 775.084, if any controlled substance that is the subject of the offense is listed in 

Schedule II, Schedule III, or Schedule IV. 

(8)(a)Notwithstanding subsection (9), a prescribing practitioner may not: 

1 .Knowingly assist a patient, other person, or the owner of an animal in obtaining a controlled 

substance through deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of 

the prescribing practitioner's professional practice; 

2.Employ a trick or scheme in the practice of the prescribing practitioner's professional 

practice to assist a patient, other person, or the owner of an animal in obtaining a controlled 

substance; 

3.Knowingly write a prescription for a controlled substance for a fictitious person; or 

4.Write a prescription for a controlled substance for a patient, other person, or an animal if 

the sole purpose of writing such prescription is to provide a monetary benefit to, or obtain a 

monetary benefit for, the prescribing practitioner. 

(b)If the prescribing practitioner wrote a prescription or multiple prescriptions for a controlled 

substance for the patient, other person, or animal for which there was no medical necessity, or 

which was in excess of what was medically necessary to treat the patient, other person, or animal, 

that fact does not give rise to any presumption that the prescribing practitioner violated 

subparagraph (a)1., but may be considered with other competent evidence in determining whether 

the prescribing practitioner knowingly assisted a patient, other person, or the owner of an animal 

to obtain a controlled substance in violation of subparagraph (a)1. 

(c)A person who violates paragraph (a) commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(d)Notwithstanding paragraph (c), if a prescribing practitioner has violated paragraph (a) and 

received $1 ,000 or more in payment for writing one or more prescriptions or, in the case of a 

prescription written for a controlled substance described in s. 893.135, has written one or more 



prescriptions for a quantity of a controlled substance which, individually or in the aggregate, meets 

the threshold for the offense of trafficking in a controlled substance under s. 893.15, the violation 

is reclassified as a felony of the second degree and ranked in level 4 of the Criminal Punishment 

Code. 

(9)The provisions of subsections (1 )-(8) are not applicable to the delivery to, or actual or 

constructive possession for medical or scientific use or purpose only of controlled substances by, 

persons included in any of the following classes, or the agents or employees of such persons, for 

use in the usual course of their business or profession or in the performance of their official duties: 

(a)Pharmacists. 

(b )Practitioners. 

(c)Persons who procure controlled substances in good faith and in the course of professional 

practice only, by or under the supervision of pharmacists or practitioners employed by them, or for 

the purpose of lawful research, teaching, or testing, and not for resale. 

(d)Hospitals that procure controlled substances for lawful administration by practitioners, but 

only for use by or in the particular hospital. 

(e)Officers or employees of state, federal, or local governments acting in their official 

capacity only, or informers acting under their jurisdiction. 

(f)Common carriers. 

(g)Manufacturers, wholesalers, and distributors. 

(h)Law enforcement officers for bona fide law enforcement purposes in the course of an 

active criminal investigation. 

(10)If a person violates any provision of this chapter and the violation results in a serious 

injury to a state or local law enforcement officer as defined in s. 943.10, firefighter as defined in 

s. 633.30, emergency medical technician as defined in s. 401 .23, paramedic as defined in s. 

401 .23, employee of a public utility or an electric utility as defined in s. 366.02, animal control 

officer as defined in s. 828.27, volunteer firefighter engaged by state or local government, law 

enforcement officer employed by the Federal Government, or any other local, state, or Federal 

Government employee injured during the course and scope of his or her employment, the person 

commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 

775.084. If the injury sustained results in death or great bodily harm, the person commits a felony 

of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

History.—s. 13, ch. 73-331; s. 1, ch. 76-200; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 2, ch. 79-1; s. 3, ch. 79-325; s. 5, ch. 80-30; s. 2, 

ch. 80-70; s. 490, ch. 81 -259; s. 2, ch. 82-16; s. 52, ch. 83-215; s. 1, ch. 84-77; s. 5, ch. 85-242; s. 4, ch. 87-243; s. 

2, ch. 88-381; s. 4, ch. 89-281; s. 1, ch. 89-524; ss. 1, 6, ch. 90-111; s. 1, ch. 93-59; s. 2, ch. 93-92; s. 1, ch. 93-194; 

ss. 22, 23, ch. 93-406; s. 2, ch. 96-360; s. 2, ch. 97-1; s. 1, ch. 97-43; s. 1827, ch. 97-102; s. 22, ch. 97-194; s. 106, 

ch. 97-264; s. 1, ch. 97-269; s. 47, ch. 97-271; s. 1, ch. 98-22; s. 1, ch. 99-154; s. 14, ch. 99-186; s. 3, ch. 2000-320; 



s. 11, ch. 2002-78; s. 2, ch. 2002-81; s. 3, ch. 2003-10; s. 1, ch. 2003-95; s. 2, ch. 2005-128; s. 108, ch. 2006-197; s. 

2, ch. 2006-306; s. 2, ch. 2008-88; s. 6, ch. 2010-113; ss. 3,4, ch. 2011-73; s. 2, ch. 2011-90; s. 26, ch. 2011-141; s. 

2, ch. 201 2-23. 

893.1 35Trafficking; mandatory sentences; suspension or reduction of sentences; 

conspiracy to engage in trafficking.— 

(1 )Except as authorized in this chapter or in chapter 499 and notwithstanding the provisions of 

s. 893.13: 

(a)Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, in excess of 25 pounds of 

cannabis, or 300 or more cannabis plants, commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall 

be known as "trafficking in cannabis," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 

775.084. If the quantity of cannabis involved: 

1.Is in excess of 25 pounds, but less than 2,000 pounds, or is 300 or more cannabis plants, but 

not more than 2,000 cannabis plants, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum 

term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of $25,000. 

2.Is 2,000 pounds or more, but less than 10,000 pounds, or is 2,000 or more cannabis plants, 

but not more than 10,000 cannabis plants, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum 

term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of $50,000. 

3.Is 10,000 pounds or more, or is 10,000 or more cannabis plants, such person shall be 

sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of 

$200,000. 

For the purpose of this paragraph, a plant, including, but not limited to, a seedling or cutting, is 

a "cannabis plant" if it has some readily observable evidence of root formation, such as root hairs. 

To determine if a piece or part of a cannabis plant severed from the cannabis plant is itself a 

cannabis plant, the severed piece or part must have some readily observable evidence of root 

formation, such as root hairs. Callous tissue is not readily observable evidence of root formation. 

The viability and sex of a plant and the fact that the plant may or may not be a dead harvested 

plant are not relevant in determining if the plant is a "cannabis plant" or in the charging of an 

offense under this paragraph. Upon conviction, the court shall impose the longest term of 

imprisonment provided for in this paragraph. 

(b)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 28 grams or more of cocaine, as 

described ins. 893.03(2)(a)4., or of any mixture containing cocaine, but less than 150 kilograms of 

cocaine or any such mixture, commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as 

"trafficking in cocaine," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the 

quantity involved: 



a.Is 28 grams or more, but less than 200 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 200 grams or more, but less than 400 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $100,000. 

c.Is 400 grams or more, but less than 150 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $250,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this state, 

or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 1 50 kilograms or more of cocaine, as 

described in s. 893.03(2)(a)4., commits the first degree felony of trafficking in cocaine. A person 

who has been convicted of the first degree felony of trafficking in cocaine under this subparagraph 

shall be punished by life imprisonment and is ineligible for any form of discretionary early release 

except pardon or executive clemency or conditional medical release under s. 947.149. However, if 

the court determines that, in addition to committing any act specified in this paragraph: 

a.The person intentionally killed an individual or counseled, commanded, induced, procured, 

or caused the intentional killing of an individual and such killing was the result; or 

b.The person's conduct in committing that act led to a natural, though not inevitable, lethal 

resu It, 

such person commits the capital felony of trafficking in cocaine, punishable as provided in ss. 

775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be 

sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

3.Any person who knowingly brings into this state 300 kilograms or more of cocaine, as 

described in s. 893.03(2)(a)4., and who knows that the probable result of such importation would 

be the death of any person, commits capital importation of cocaine, a capital felony punishable as 

provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this 

paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(c)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 4 grams or more of any 

morphine, opium, oxycodone, hydrocodone, hydromorphone, or any salt, derivative, isomer, or salt 

of an isomer thereof, including heroin, as described ins. 893.03(1)(b), (2)(a), (3)(c)3., or (3)(c)4., 

or 4 grams or more of any mixture containing any such substance, but less than 30 kilograms of 

such substance or mixture, commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as 

"trafficking in illegal drugs," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the 

quantity involved: 

a.Is 4 grams or more, but less than 14 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 



minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shalt be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 14 grams or more, but less than 28 grams, such person shalt be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 15 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$100,000. 

c.Is 28 grams or more, but less than 30 kilograms, such person shalt be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 25 calendar years and pay a fine of $500,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this state, 

or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 30 kilograms or more of any morphine, 

opium, oxycodone, hydrocodone, hydromorphone, or any salt, derivative, isomer, or salt of an 

isomer thereof, including heroin, as described in s. 893.03(1 )(b), (2)(a), (3)(c)3., or (3)(c)4., or 30 

kilograms or more of any mixture containing any such substance, commits the first degree felony of 

trafficking in illegal drugs. A person who has been convicted of the first degree felony of trafficking 

in illegal drugs under this subparagraph shall be punished by life imprisonment and is ineligible for 

any form of discretionary early release except pardon or executive clemency or conditional medical 

release under s. 947.149. However, if the court determines that, in addition to committing any act 

specified in this paragraph: 

a.The person intentionally killed an individual or counseled, commanded, induced, procured, 

or caused the intentional killing of an individual and such killing was the result; or 

b.The person's conduct in committing that act led to a natural, though not inevitable, lethal 

resu It, 

such person commits the capital felony of trafficking in illegal drugs, punishable as provided in 

ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also 

be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

3.Any person who knowingly brings into this state 60 kilograms or more of any morphine, 

opium, oxycodone, hydrocodone, hydromorphone, or any salt, derivative, isomer, or salt of an 

isomer thereof, including heroin, as described in s. 893.03(1 )(b), (2)(a), (3)(c)3., or (3)(c)4., or 60 

kilograms or more of any mixture containing any such substance, and who knows that the probable 

result of such importation would be the death of any person, commits capital importation of illegal 

drugs, a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for 

a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided 

under subparagraph 1. 

(d)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 28 grams or more of 

phencyclidine or of any mixture containing phencyclidine, as described in s. 893.03(2)(b), commits 

a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as "trafficking in phencyclidine," 



punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 28 grams or more, but less than 200 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 200 grams or more, but less than 400 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $100,000. 

c.Is 400 grams or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $250,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly brings into this state 800 grams or more of phencyclidine or of 

any mixture containing phencyclidine, as described in s. 893.03(2)(b), and who knows that the 

probable result of such importation would be the death of any person commits capital importation 

of phencyclidine, a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person 

sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum 

fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(e)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 200 grams or more of 

methaqualone or of any mixture containing methaqualone, as described in s. 893.03(1 )(d), commits 

a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as "trafficking in methaqualone," 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 200 grams or more, but less than 5 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $50,000. 

b.Is 5 kilograms or more, but less than 25 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $100,000. 

c.Is 25 kilograms or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $250,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly brings into this state 50 kilograms or more of methaqualone or of 

any mixture containing methaqualone, as described in s. 893.03(1 )(d), and who knows that the 

probable result of such importation would be the death of any person commits capital importation 

of methaqualone, a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person 

sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum 

fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(f)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 14 grams or more of 



amphetamine, as described in s. 893.03(2)(c)2., or methamphetamine, as described in s. 

893.03(2)(c)4., or of any mixture containing amphetamine or methamphetamine, or 

phenylacetone, phenylacetic acid, pseudoephedrine, or ephedrine in conjunction with other 

chemicals and equipment utilized in the manufacture of amphetamine or methamphetamine, 

commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as "trafficking in amphetamine," 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 14 grams or more, but less than 28 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 28 grams or more, but less than 200 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$100,000. 

c.Is 200 grams or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $250,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly manufactures or brings into this state 400 grams or more of 

amphetamine, as described in s. 893.03(2)(c)2., or methamphetamine, as described in s. 

893.03(2)(c)4., or of any mixture containing amphetamine or methamphetamine, or 

phenylacetone, phenylacetic acid, pseudoephedrine, or ephedrine in conjunction with other 

chemicals and equipment used in the manufacture of amphetamine or methamphetamine, and who 

knows that the probable result of such manufacture or importation would be the death of any 

person commits capital manufacture or importation of amphetamine, a capital felony punishable as 

provided in 55. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this 

paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(g)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 4 grams or more of flunitrazepam 

or any mixture containing flunitrazepam as described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) commits a felony of the 

first degree, which felony shall be known as "trafficking in flunitrazepam," punishable as provided 

in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 4 grams or more but less than 14 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 14 grams or more but less than 28 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$100,000. 

c.Is 28 grams or more but less than 30 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 25 calendar years and pay a fine of $500,000. 



2.Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this state 

or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of 30 kilograms or more of flunitrazepam or 

any mixture containing flunitrazepam as described ins. 893.03(1)(a) commits the first degree 

felony of trafficking in flunitrazepam. A person who has been convicted of the first degree felony 

of trafficking in flunitrazepam under this subparagraph shall be punished by life imprisonment and 

is ineligible for any form of discretionary early release except pardon or executive clemency or 

conditional medical release under s. 947.149. However, if the court determines that, in addition to 

committing any act specified in this paragraph: 

a.The person intentionally killed an individual or counseled, commanded, induced, procured, 

or caused the intentional killing of an individual and such killing was the result; or 

b.The person's conduct in committing that act led to a natural, though not inevitable, lethal 

resu It, 

such person commits the capital felony of trafficking in flunitrazepam, punishable as provided in 

ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also 

be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(h)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 1 kilogram or more of gamma- 

hydroxybutyric acid (GHB), as described ins. 893.03(1)(d), or any mixture containing gamma- 

hydroxybutyric acid (GHB), commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as 

"trafficking in gamma-hydroxybutyric acid (GHB)," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 

775.083, or s. 775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 1 kilogram or more but less than 5 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $50,000. 

b.Is 5 kilograms or more but less than 10 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $100,000. 

c.Is 10 kilograms or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $250,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly manufactures or brings into this state 150 kilograms or more of 

gamma-hydroxybutyric acid (GHB), as described in s. 893.03(1 )(d), or any mixture containing 

gamma-hydroxybutyric acid (GHB), and who knows that the probable result of such manufacture or 

importation would be the death of any person commits capital manufacture or importation of 

gamma-hydroxybutyric acid (GHB), a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 

921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to 

pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 





knows that the probable result of such manufacture or importation would be the death of any 

person commits capital manufacture or importation of 1 ,4-Butanediol, a capital felony punishable 

as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this 

paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(k)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 10 grams or more of any of the 

following substances described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) or (c): 

a.3,4-Methylenedioxymethamphetamine (MDMA); 

b.4-Bromo-2, 5-dimethoxyamphetamine; 

c.4-Bromo-2 , 5-dimethoxyphenethylamine; 

d.2,5-Dimethoxyamphetamine; 

e.2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-ethylamphetamine (DOET); 

f. N-ethylamphetamine; 

g. N - Hydroxy-3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

h. 5-Methoxy-3 ,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

i.4-methoxyamphetamine; 

j .4-methoxymethamphetamine; 

k.4-Methyl-2, 5-dimethoxyamphetamine; 

1.3 ,4-Methylenedioxy-N -ethylamphetamine; 

m .3 ,4-Methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

n.N,N-dimethylamphetamine; or 

o.3,4,5-Trimethoxyamphetamine, 

individually or in any combination of or any mixture containing any substance listed in sub- 

subparagraphs a.-o., commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as 

"trafficking in Phenethylamines," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

2.If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 10 grams or more but less than 200 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 200 grams or more, but less than 400 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $100,000. 

c.Is 400 grams or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $250,000. 

3.Any person who knowingly manufactures or brings into this state 30 kilograms or more of any 

of the following substances described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) or (c): 



a.3,4-Methylenedioxymethamphetamine (MDMA); 

b.4-Bromo-2, 5-dimethoxyamphetamine; 

c.4-Bromo-2 , 5-dimethoxyphenethylamine; 

d.2,5-Dimethoxyamphetamine; 

e.2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-ethylamphetamine (DOET); 

f. N-ethylamphetamine; 

g. N - Hydroxy-3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

h. 5-Methoxy-3 ,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

i.4-methoxyamphetamine; 

j .4-methoxymethamphetamine; 

k.4-Methyl-2, 5-dimethoxyamphetamine; 

1.3 ,4-Methylenedioxy-N -ethylamphetamine; 

m .3 ,4-Methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

n.N,N-dimethylamphetamine; or 

o.3,4,5-Trimethoxyamphetamine, 

individually or in any combination of or any mixture containing any substance listed in sub- 

subparagraphs a.-o., and who knows that the probable result of such manufacture or importation 

would be the death of any person commits capital manufacture or importation of Phenethylamines, 

a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a 

capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided 

under subparagraph 1. 

(1)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 1 gram or more of lysergic acid 

diethylamide (LSD) as described in s. 893.03(1 )(c), or of any mixture containing lysergic acid 

diethylamide (LSD), commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as 

"trafficking in lysergic acid diethylamide (LSD)," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, 

or s. 775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 1 gram or more, but less than 5 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 5 grams or more, but less than 7 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$100,000. 

c.Is 7 grams or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $500,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly manufactures or brings into this state 7 grams or more of lysergic 



acid diethylamide (LSD) as described in s. 893.03(1 )(c), or any mixture containing lysergic acid 

diethylamide (LSD), and who knows that the probable result of such manufacture or importation 

would be the death of any person commits capital manufacture or importation of lysergic acid 

diethylamide (LSD), a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person 

sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum 

fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(2)A person acts knowingly under subsection (1) if that person intends to sell, purchase, 

manufacture, deliver, or bring into this state, or to actually or constructively possess, any of the 

controlled substances listed in subsection (1), regardless of which controlled substance listed in 

subsection (1) is in fact sold, purchased, manufactured, delivered, or brought into this state, or 

actually or constructively possessed. 

(3)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 948.01, with respect to any person who is found to 

have violated this section, adjudication of guilt or imposition of sentence shall not be suspended, 

deferred, or withheld, nor shall such person be eligible for parole prior to serving the mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment prescribed by this section. A person sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment under this section is not eligible for any form of discretionary early 

release, except pardon or executive clemency or conditional medical release under s. 947.149, 

prior to serving the mandatory minimum term of imprisonment. 

(4)The state attorney may move the sentencing court to reduce or suspend the sentence of 

any person who is convicted of a violation of this section and who provides substantial assistance in 

the identification, arrest, or conviction of any of that person's accomplices, accessories, 

coconspirators, or principals or of any other person engaged in trafficking in controlled substances. 

The arresting agency shall be given an opportunity to be heard in aggravation or mitigation in 

reference to any such motion. Upon good cause shown, the motion may be filed and heard in 

camera. The judge hearing the motion may reduce or suspend the sentence if the judge finds that 

the defendant rendered such substantial assistance. 

(5)Any person who agrees, conspires, combines, or confederates with another person to 

commit any act prohibited by subsection (1) commits a felony of the first degree and is punishable 

as if he or she had actually committed such prohibited act. Nothing in this subsection shall be 

construed to prohibit separate convictions and sentences for a violation of this subsection and any 

violation of subsection (1). 

(6)A mixture, as defined in s. 893.02, containing any controlled substance described in this 

section includes, but is not limited to, a solution or a dosage unit, including but not limited to, a 

pill or tablet, containing a controlled substance. For the purpose of clarifying legislative intent 

regarding the weighing of a mixture containing a controlled substance described in this section, the 

weight of the controlled substance is the total weight of the mixture, including the controlled 



in is more mixture containing 

of the the 

of 

of the the 

in 1 (Fla. 1999) does not correctly construe legislative intent. 

The Legislature finds that the opinions in State v. Hayes, 720 So. 2d 1095 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998) and 

State v. Baxley, 684 So. 2d 831 (Fla. 5th DCA 1996) correctly construe legislative intent. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 79-1; s. 1, ch. 80-70; s. 2, ch. 80-353; s. 491, ch. 81-259; s. 1, ch. 82-2; s. 3, ch. 82-16; s. 53, 

ch. 83-21 5; s. 5, ch. 87-243; ss. 1, 4, ch. 89-281; s. 1, ch. 90-112; s. 3, ch. 93-92; s. 24, ch. 93-406; s. 15, ch. 95- 

184; s. 5, ch. 95-415; s. 54, ch. 96-388; s. 3, ch. 97-1; s. 1828, ch. 97-102; s. 23, ch. 97-194; s. 9, ch. 99-188; s. 4, 

ch. 2000-320; s. 2, ch. 2001 -55; S. 7, ch. 2001 -57; ss. 1, 2, 3, ch. 2002-212; s. 4, ch. 2003-10; s. 3, ch. 2005-128; s. 

7, ch. 2008-184; s. 5, ch. 2011-73; s. 3, ch. 2011-90. 

893.l35lOwnership, lease, rental, or possession for trafficking in or manufacturing a 

controlled substance.— 

(1 )A person may not own, lease, or rent any place, structure, or part thereof, trailer, or other 

conveyance with the knowledge that the place, structure, trailer, or conveyance will be used for 

the purpose of trafficking in a controlled substance, as provided in s. 893.135; for the sale of a 

controlled substance, as provided in s. 893.13; or for the manufacture of a controlled substance 

intended for sale or distribution to another. A person who violates this subsection commits a felony 

of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(2)A person may not knowingly be in actual or constructive possession of any place, structure, 

or part thereof, trailer, or other conveyance with the knowledge that the place, structure, or part 

thereof, trailer, or conveyance will be used for the purpose of trafficking in a controlled substance, 

as provided in s. 893.135; for the sale of a controlled substance, as provided in s. 893.13; or for the 

manufacture of a controlled substance intended for sale or distribution to another. A person who 

violates this subsection commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)A person who is in actual or constructive possession of a place, structure, trailer, or 

conveyance with the knowledge that the place, structure, trailer, or conveyance is being used to 

manufacture a controlled substance intended for sale or distribution to another and who knew or 

should have known that a minor is present or resides in the place, structure, trailer, or conveyance 

commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 

775.084. 

(4)For the purposes of this section, proof of the possession of 25 or more cannabis plants 

constitutes prima facie evidence that the cannabis is intended for sale or distribution. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 91-118; s. 10, ch. 99-188; s. 22, ch. 2000-320; s. 1, ch. 2002-212; s. 14, ch. 2005-128; s. 2, ch. 



2008-184. 

893.l38Local administrative action to abate drug-related, prostitution-related, or stolen- 

property-related public nuisances and criminal gang activity.— 

(1 )It is the intent of this section to promote, protect, and improve the health, safety, and 

welfare of the citizens of the counties and municipalities of this state by authorizing the creation 

of administrative boards with authority to impose administrative fines and other noncriminal 

penalties in order to provide an equitable, expeditious, effective, and inexpensive method of 

enforcing ordinances in counties and municipalities under circumstances when a pending or 

repeated violation continues to exist. 

(2)Any place or premises that has been used: 

(a)On more than two occasions within a 6-month period, as the site of a violation of s. 796.07; 

(b)On more than two occasions within a 6-month period, as the site of the unlawful sale, 

delivery, manufacture, or cultivation of any controlled substance; 

(c)On one occasion as the site of the unlawful possession of a controlled substance, where 

such possession constitutes a felony and that has been previously used on more than one occasion 

as the site of the unlawful sale, delivery, manufacture, or cultivation of any controlled substance; 

(d)By a criminal gang for the purpose of conducting criminal gang activity as defined by s. 

874.03; or 

(e)On more than two occasions within a 6-month period, as the site of a violation of s. 812.019 

relating to dealing in stolen property 

may be declared to be a public nuisance, and such nuisance may be abated pursuant to the 

procedures provided in this section. 

(3)Any pain-management clinic, as described in s. 458.3265 or s. 459.0137, which has been 

used on more than two occasions within a 6-month period as the site of a violation of: 

(a)Section 784.011, s. 784.021, s. 784.03, or s. 784.045, relating to assault and battery; 

(b)Section 810.02, relating to burglary; 

(c)Section 812.014, relating to dealing in theft; 

(d)Section 812.131, relating to robbery by sudden snatching; or 

(e)Section 893.13, relating to the unlawful distribution of controlled substances, 

may be declared to be a public nuisance, and such nuisance may be abated pursuant to the 

procedures provided in this section. 

(4)Any county or municipality may, by ordinance, create an administrative board to hear 

complaints regarding the nuisances described in subsection (2). Any employee, officer, or resident 

of the county or municipality may bring a complaint before the board after giving not less than 3 

days' written notice of such complaint to the owner of the place or premises at his or her last 

known address. After a hearing in which the board may consider any evidence, including evidence 



of the general reputation of the place or premises, and at which the owner of the premises shall 

have an opportunity to present evidence in his or her defense, the board may declare the place or 

premises to be a public nuisance as described in subsection (2). 

(5)If the board declares a place or premises to be a public nuisance, it may enter an order 

requiring the owner of such place or premises to adopt such procedure as may be appropriate 

under the circumstances to abate any such nuisance or it may enter an order immediately 

prohibiting: 

(a)The maintaining of the nuisance; 

(b)The operating or maintaining of the place or premises, including the closure of the place or 

premises or any part thereof; or 

(c)The conduct, operation, or maintenance of any business or activity on the premises which is 

conducive to such nuisance. 

(6)An order entered under subsection (5) shall expire after 1 year or at such earlier time as is 

stated in the order. 

(7)An order entered under subsection (5) may be enforced pursuant to the procedures 

contained in s. 120.69. This subsection does not subject a municipality that creates a board under 

this section, or the board so created, to any other provision of chapter 120. 

(8)The board may bring a complaint under s. 60.05 seeking temporary and permanent 

injunctive relief against any nuisance described in subsection (2). 

(9)This section does not restrict the right of any person to proceed under s. 60.05 against any 

public nuisance. 

(10)As used in this section, the term "controlled substance" includes any substance sold in lieu 

of a controlled substance in violation of s. 817.563 or any imitation controlled substance defined in 

s. 817.564. 

(11 )The provisions of this section may be supplemented by a county or municipal ordinance. 

The ordinance may include, but is not limited to, provisions that establish additional penalties for 

public nuisances, including fines not to exceed $250 per day; provide for the payment of 

reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney fees associated with investigations of and hearings 

on public nuisances; provide for continuing jurisdiction for a period of 1 year over any place or 

premises that has been or is declared to be a public nuisance; establish penalties, including fines 

not to exceed $500 per day for recurring public nuisances; provide for the recording of orders on 

public nuisances so that notice must be given to subsequent purchasers, successors in interest, or 

assigns of the real property that is the subject of the order; provide that recorded orders on public 

nuisances may become liens against the real property that is the subject of the order; and provide 

for the foreclosure of property subject to a lien and the recovery of all costs, including reasonable 

attorney fees, associated with the recording of orders and foreclosure. No lien created pursuant to 



the provisions of this section may be foreclosed on real property which is a homestead under s. 4, 

Art. X of the State Constitution. Where a local government seeks to bring an administrative action, 

based on a stolen property nuisance, against a property owner operating an establishment where 

multiple tenants, on one site, conduct their own retail business, the property owner shall not be 

subject to a lien against his or her property or the prohibition of operation provision if the property 

owner evicts the business declared to be a nuisance within 90 days after notification by registered 

mail to the property owner of a second stolen property conviction of the tenant. The total fines 

imposed pursuant to the authority of this section shall not exceed $15,000. Nothing contained 

within this section prohibits a county or municipality from proceeding against a public nuisance by 

any other means. 

History.—s. 7, ch. 87-243; s. 2, ch. 90-207; s. 1, ch. 91-143; s. 6, ch. 93-227; s. 1, ch. 94-242; s. 42, ch. 96-388; 

s. 1829, ch. 97-102; s. 1, ch. 97-200; s. 2, ch. 98-395; s. 1, ch. 2000-111; s. 5, ch. 2001 -66; s. 24, ch. 2008-238; s. 

27, ch. 2011-141; s. 87, ch. 2012-5. 

893.145"Drug paraphernalia" defined.—The term "drug paraphernalia" means all 

equipment, products, and materials of any kind which are used, intended for use, or designed for 

use in planting, propagating, cultivating, growing, harvesting, manufacturing, compounding, 

converting, producing, processing, preparing, testing, analyzing, packaging, repackaging, storing, 

containing, concealing, transporting, injecting, ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise introducing into 

the human body a controlled substance in violation of this chapter or s. 877.111. Drug 

paraphernalia is deemed to be contraband which shall be subject to civil forfeiture. The term 

includes, but is not limited to: 

(1 )Kits used, intended for use, or designed for use in the planting, propagating, cultivating, 

growing, or harvesting of any species of plant which is a controlled substance or from which a 

controlled substance can be derived. 

(2)Kits used, intended for use, or designed for use in manufacturing, compounding, 

converting, producing, processing, or preparing controlled substances. 

(3)Isomerization devices used, intended for use, or designed for use in increasing the potency 

of any species of plant which is a controlled substance. 

(4)Testing equipment used, intended for use, or designed for use in identifying, or in analyzing 

the strength, effectiveness, or purity of, controlled substances. 

(5)Scales and balances used, intended for use, or designed for use in weighing or measuring 

controlled substances. 

(6)Diluents and adulterants, such as quinine hydrochloride, mannitol, mannite, dextrose, and 

lactose, used, intended for use, or designed for use in cutting controlled substances. 

(7)Separation gins and sifters used, intended for use, or designed for use in removing twigs 

and seeds from, or in otherwise cleaning or refining, cannabis. 



(8)Blenders, bowls, containers, spoons, and mixing devices used, intended for use, or designed 

for use in compounding controlled substances. 

(9)Capsules, balloons, envelopes, and other containers used, intended for use, or designed for 

use in packaging small quantities of controlled substances. 

(1O)Containers and other objects used, intended for use, or designed for use in storing, 

concealing, or transporting controlled substances. 

(11 )Hypodermic syringes, needles, and other objects used, intended for use, or designed for 

use in parenterally injecting controlled substances into the human body. 

(12)Objects used, intended for use, or designed for use in ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise 

introducing cannabis, cocaine, hashish, hashish oil, or nitrous oxide into the human body, such as: 

(a)Metal, wooden, acrylic, glass, stone, plastic, or ceramic pipes, with or without screens, 

permanent screens, hashish heads, or punctured metal bowls. 

(b)Water pipes. 

(c)Carburetion tubes and devices. 

(d)Smoking and carburetion masks. 

(e)Roach clips: meaning objects used to hold burning material, such as a cannabis cigarette, 

that has become too small or too short to be held in the hand. 

(f)Miniature cocaine spoons, and cocaine vials. 

(g)Chamber pipes. 

(h)Carburetor pipes. 

(i)Electric pipes. 

(j)Air-driven pipes. 

(k)Chillums. 

(l)Bongs. 

(m)Ice pipes or chillers. 

(n)A cartridge or canister, which means a small metal device used to contain nitrous oxide. 

(o)A charger, sometimes referred to as a "cracker," which means a small metal or plastic 

device that contains an interior pin that may be used to expel nitrous oxide from a cartridge or 

container. 

(p)A charging bottle, which means a device that may be used to expel nitrous oxide from a 

cartridge or canister. 

(q)A whip-it, which means a device that may be used to expel nitrous oxide. 

(r)A tank. 

(s)A balloon. 

(t)A hose or tube. 

(u)A 2-liter-type soda bottle. 



(v)Duct tape. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 80-30; s. 6, ch. 2000-320; s. 15, ch. 2000-360. 

893.l46Determination of paraphernalia.—In determining whether an object is drug 

paraphernalia, a court or other authority or jury shall consider, in addition to all other logically 

relevant factors, the following: 

(1 )Statements by an owner or by anyone in control of the object concerning its use. 

(2)The proximity of the object, in time and space, to a direct violation of this act. 

(3)The proximity of the object to controlled substances. 

(4)The existence of any residue of controlled substances on the object. 

(5)Direct or circumstantial evidence of the intent of an owner, or of anyone in control of the 

object, to deliver it to persons who he or she knows, or should reasonably know, intend to use the 

object to facilitate a violation of this act. The innocence of an owner, or of anyone in control of 

the object, as to a direct violation of this act shall not prevent a finding that the object is intended 

for use, or designed for use, as drug paraphernalia. 

(6)Instructions, oral or written, provided with the object concerning its use. 

(7)Descriptive materials accompanying the object which explain or depict its use. 

(8)Any advertising concerning its use. 

(9)The manner in which the object is displayed for sale. 

(1O)Whether the owner, or anyone in control of the object, is a legitimate supplier of like or 

related items to the community, such as a licensed distributor of or dealer in tobacco products. 

(11 )Direct or circumstantial evidence of the ratio of sales of the object or objects to the total 

sales of the business enterprise. 

(12)The existence and scope of legitimate uses for the object in the community. 

(13)Expert testimony concerning its use. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 80-30; s. 1445, ch. 97-102. 

893.l47Use, possession, manufacture, delivery, transportation, or advertisement of drug 

paraphernalia. 

(1 )USE OR POSSESSION OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA.—It is unlawful for any person to use, or to 

possess with intent to use, drug paraphernalia: 

(a)To plant, propagate, cultivate, grow, harvest, manufacture, compound, convert, produce, 

process, prepare, test, analyze, pack, repack, store, contain, or conceal a controlled substance in 

violation of this chapter; or 

(b)To inject, ingest, inhale, or otherwise introduce into the human body a controlled 

substance in violation of this chapter. 

Any person who violates this subsection is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 



(2)MANUFACTURE OR DELIVERY OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA.—It is unlawful for any person to 

deliver, possess with intent to deliver, or manufacture with intent to deliver drug paraphernalia, 

knowing, or under circumstances where one reasonably should know, that it will be used: 

(a)To plant, propagate, cultivate, grow, harvest, manufacture, compound, convert, produce, 

process, prepare, test, analyze, pack, repack, store, contain, or conceal a controlled substance in 

violation of this act; or 

(b)To inject, ingest, inhale, or otherwise introduce into the human body a controlled 

substance in violation of this act. 

Any person who violates this subsection is guilty of a felony of the third degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)DELIVERY OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA TO A MINOR.— 

(a)Any person 18 years of age or over who violates subsection (2) by delivering drug 

paraphernalia to a person under 18 years of age is guilty of a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(b)It is unlawful for any person to sell or otherwise deliver hypodermic syringes, needles, or 

other objects which may be used, are intended for use, or are designed for use in parenterally 

injecting substances into the human body to any person under 18 years of age, except that 

hypodermic syringes, needles, or other such objects may be lawfully dispensed to a person under 

18 years of age by a licensed practitioner, parent, or legal guardian or by a pharmacist pursuant to 

a valid prescription for same. Any person who violates the provisions of this paragraph is guilty of a 

misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(4)TRANSPORTATION OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA.—It is unlawful to use, possess with the intent 

to use, or manufacture with the intent to use drug paraphernalia, knowing or under circumstances 

in which one reasonably should know that it will be used to transport: 

(a)A controlled substance in violation of this chapter; or 

(b)Contraband as defined in s. 932.701 (2)(a)1. 

Any person who violates this subsection commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(5)ADVERTISEMENT OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA.—It is unlawful for any person to place in any 

newspaper, magazine, handbill, or other publication any advertisement, knowing, or under 

circumstances where one reasonably should know, that the purpose of the advertisement, in whole 

or in part, is to promote the sale of objects designed or intended for use as drug paraphernalia. 

Any person who violates this subsection is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable 

as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 80-30; s. 1, ch. 81-149; s. 54, ch. 83-215; s. 1, ch. 85-8; s. 223, ch. 91 -224; s. 16, ch. 2000-360. 

893.1 49Unlawfu I possession of listed chemical.— 



(1 )It is unlawful for any person to knowingly or intentionally: 

(a)Possess a listed chemical with the intent to unlawfully manufacture a controlled substance; 

(b)Possess or distribute a listed chemical knowing, or having reasonable cause to believe, that 

the listed chemical will be used to unlawfully manufacture a controlled substance. 

(2)Any person who violates this section commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)This section does not apply to a public employee or private contractor authorized to clean 

up or dispose of hazardous waste or toxic substances resulting from the prohibited activities listed 

ins. 893.13(1)(g). 

(4)Any damages arising out of the unlawful possession of, storage of, or tampering with a 

listed chemical, as defined in s. 893.033, shall be the sole responsibility of the person or persons 

unlawfully possessing, storing, or tampering with the listed chemical. In no case shall liability for 

damages arising out of the unlawful possession of, storage of, or tampering with a listed chemical 

extend to the lawful owner, installer, maintainer, designer, manufacturer, possessor, or seller of 

the listed chemical, unless such damages arise out of the acts or omissions of the owner, installer, 

maintainer, designer, manufacturer, possessor, or seller which constitute negligent misconduct or 

failure to abide by the laws regarding the possession or storage of a listed chemical. 

History.—s. 5, ch. 91 -279; s. 3, ch. 2003-15; s. 4, ch. 2005-128. 

893.l495Retail sale of ephedrine and related compounds.— 

(1 )For purposes of this section, the term "ephedrine or related compounds" means ephedrine, 

pseudoephedrine, phenylpropanolamine, or any of their salts, optical isomers, or salts of optical 

isomers. 

(2)A person may not knowingly obtain or deliver to an individual in any retail over-the-counter 

sale any nonprescription compound, mixture, or preparation containing ephedrine or related 

compounds in excess of the following amounts: 

(a)In any single day, any number of packages that contain a total of 3.6 grams of ephedrine or 

related compounds; 

(b)In any single retail, over-the-counter sale, three packages, regardless of weight, containing 

ephedrine or related compounds; or 

(c)In any 30-day period, in any number of retail, over-the-counter sales, a total of 9 grams or 

more of ephedrine or related compounds. 

(3)A person may not knowingly display and offer for retail sale any nonprescription compound, 

mixture, or preparation containing ephedrine or related compounds other than behind a checkout 

counter where the public is not permitted or other such location that is not otherwise accessible to 

the general public. 

(4)A person who is the owner or primary operator of a retail outlet where any nonprescription 



compound, mixture, or preparation containing ephedrine or related compounds is available for sale 

may not knowingly allow an employee to engage in the retail sale of such compound, mixture, or 

preparation unless the employee has completed an employee training program that shall include, 

at a minimum, basic instruction on state and federal regulations relating to the sale and 

distribution of such compounds, mixtures, or preparations. 

(5)(a)Any person purchasing, receiving, or otherwise acquiring any nonprescription compound, 

mixture, or preparation containing any detectable quantity of ephedrine or related compounds 

must: 

1 . Be at least 18 years of age. 

2.Produce a government-issued photo identification showing his or her name, date of birth, 

address, and photo identification number or an alternative form of identification acceptable under 

federal regulation 8 C.F.R. s. 274a.2(b)(1)(v)(A) and (B). 

3.Sign his or her name on a record of the purchase, either on paper or on an electronic 

signature capture device. 

(b)The Department of Law Enforcement shall approve an electronic recordkeeping system for 

the purpose of recording and monitoring the real-time purchase of products containing ephedrine 

or related compounds and for the purpose of monitoring this information in order to prevent or 

investigate illegal purchases of these products. The approved electronic recordkeeping system shall 

be provided to a pharmacy or retailer without any additional cost or expense. A pharmacy or 

retailer may request an exemption from electronic reporting from the Department of Law 

Enforcement if the pharmacy or retailer lacks the technology to access the electronic 

recordkeeping system and such pharmacy or retailer maintains a sales volume of less than 72 grams 

of ephedrine or related compounds in a 30-day period. The electronic recordkeeping system shall 

record the following: 

1 .The date and time of the transaction. 

2.The name, date of birth, address, and photo identification number of the purchaser, as well 

as the type of identification and the government of issuance. 

3.The number of packages purchased, the total grams per package, and the name of the 

compound, mixture, or preparation containing ephedrine or related compounds. 

4.The signature of the purchaser, or a unique number relating the transaction to a paper 

signature maintained at the retail premises. 

(c)The electronic recordkeeping system shall provide for: 

1 .Real-time tracking of nonprescription over-the-counter sales under this section. 

2.The blocking of nonprescription over-the-counter sales in excess of those allowed by the 

laws of this state or federal law. 

(6)A nonprescription compound, mixture, or preparation containing any quantity of ephedrine 



or related compounds may not be sold over the counter unless reported to an electronic 

recordkeeping system approved by the Department of Law Enforcement. This subsection does not 

apply if the pharmacy or retailer has received an exemption from the Department of Law 

Enforcement under paragraph (5 )(b). 

(7)Prior to completing a transaction, a pharmacy or retailer distributing products containing 

ephedrine or related compounds to consumers in this state shall submit all required data into an 

electronic recordkeeping system approved by the Department of Law Enforcement at the point of 

sale or through an interface with the electronic recordkeeping system, unless granted an 

exemption by the Department of Law Enforcement pursuant to paragraph (5)(b). 

(8)The data submitted to the electronic recordkeeping system must be retained within the 

system for no less than 2 years following the date of entry. 

(9)The requirements of this section relating to the marketing, sale, or distribution of products 

containing ephedrine or related compounds supersede any local ordinance or regulation passed by a 

county, municipality, or other local governmental authority. 

(10)This section does not apply to: 

(a)Licensed manufacturers manufacturing and lawfully distributing products in the channels of 

commerce. 

(b)Wholesalers lawfully distributing products in the channels of commerce. 

(c)Health care facilities licensed under chapter 395. 

(d)Licensed long-term care facilities. 

(e)Government-operated health departments. 

(f)Physicians' offices. 

(g)Publicly operated prisons, jails, or juvenile correctional facilities or private adult or 

juvenile correctional facilities under contract with the state. 

(h)Public or private educational institutions maintaining health care programs. 

(i)Government-operated or industry-operated medical facilities serving employees of the 

government or industry operating them. 

(11 )Any individual who violates subsection (2), subsection (3), or subsection (4) commits: 

(a)For a first offense, a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.083. 

(b)For a second offense, a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(c)For a third or subsequent offense, a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(12)Information contained within the electronic recordkeeping system shall be disclosed in a 

manner authorized by state or federal law. Any retailer or entity that collects information on 



behalf of a retailer as required by the Combat Methamphetamine Epidemic Act of 2005 and this 

section may not access or use that information, except for law enforcement purposes pursuant to 

state or federal law or to facilitate a product recall for public health and safety. 

(13)A person who sells any product containing ephedrine or related compounds who in good 

faith releases information under this section to federal, state, or local law enforcement officers, or 

any person acting on behalf of such an officer, is immune from civil liability for the release unless 

the release constitutes gross negligence or intentional, wanton, or willful misconduct. 

(14)The Department of Law Enforcement shall contract or enter into a memorandum of 

understanding, as applicable, with a private third-party administrator to implement the electronic 

recordkeeping system required by this section. 

(15)The Department of Law Enforcement shall adopt rules necessary to implement this 

section. 

History.—s. 5, ch. 2005-128; S. 1, ch. 2010-191. 

893.l5Rehabilitation.—Any person who violates s. 893.13(6)(a) or (b) relating to possession 

may, in the discretion of the trial judge, be required to participate in a substance abuse services 

program approved or regulated by the Department of Children and Family Services pursuant to the 

provisions of chapter 397, provided the director of such program approves the placement of the 

defendant in such program. Such required participation shall be imposed in addition to any penalty 

or probation otherwise prescribed by law. However, the total time of such penalty, probation, and 

program participation shall not exceed the maximum length of sentence possible for the offense. 

History.—s. 15, ch. 73-331; s. 46, ch. 91-110; s. 40, ch. 93-39; s. 3, ch. 94-107; s. 39, ch. 97-194; s. 304, ch. 99-8. 

893.l65County alcohol and other drug abuse treatment or education trust funds.— 

(1 )Counties in which there is established or in existence a comprehensive alcohol and other 

drug abuse treatment or education program which meets the standards for qualification of such 

programs by the Department of Children and Family Services are authorized to establish a County 

Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Trust Fund for the purpose of receiving the assessments collected 

pursuant to s. 938.23 and disbursing assistance grants on an annual basis to such alcohol and other 

drug abuse treatment or education program. 

(2)Assessments collected by the clerks of court pursuant to s. 938.23 shall be remitted to the 

board of county commissioners of the county in which the indictment was found or the prosecution 

commenced for payment into the County Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Trust Fund. The county 

commissioners shall require a full report from all clerks of county courts and clerks of circuit courts 

once each month of the amount of assessments imposed by their courts. 

(3)(a)No county shall receive assessments collected pursuant to s. 938.23 in an amount 

exceeding that county's jurisdictional share as described in subsection (2). 

(b)Assessments collected by clerks of circuit courts having more than one county in the 



circuit, for any county in the circuit which does not have a County Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 

Trust Fund, shall be remitted to the Department of Children and Family Services, in accordance 

with administrative rules adopted, for deposit into the department's Grants and Donations Trust 

Fund for distribution pursuant to the guidelines and priorities developed by the department. 

(4)No assessments shall be remitted to a county until the board of county commissioners has 

submitted documentation to the court substantiating the establishment of its County Alcohol and 

Other Drug Abuse Trust Fund. 

(5)If the board of county commissioners chooses to establish a County Alcohol and Other Drug 

Abuse Trust Fund, the board shall be responsible for the establishment of such fund and its 

implementation, administration, supervision, and evaluation. 

(6)In order to receive assistance grants from the County Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Trust 

Fund, county alcohol and other drug abuse prevention, treatment, or education programs shall be 

designated by the board of county commissioners as the chosen program recipients. Designations 

shall be made annually, based on success of the programs. 

(7)An alcohol and other drug abuse treatment or education program recipient shall, in seeking 

assistance grants from the County Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Trust Fund, provide the board of 

county commissioners with detailed financial information and requests for expenditures. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 88-381; s. 3, ch. 93-194; s. 37, ch. 97-271; S. 305, ch. 99-8; s. 5, ch. 2009-47. 

893.20Continuing criminal enterprise.— 

(1 )Any person who commits three or more felonies under this chapter in concert with five or 

more other persons with respect to whom such person occupies a position of organizer, a 

supervisory position, or any other position of management and who obtains substantial assets or 

resources from these acts is guilty of engaging in a continuing criminal enterprise. 

(2)A person who commits the offense of engaging in a continuing criminal enterprise is guilty 

of a life felony, punishable pursuant to the Criminal Punishment Code and by a fine of $500,000. 

(3)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 948.01, with respect to any person who is found to 

have violated this section, adjudication of guilt or imposition of sentence may not be suspended, 

deferred, or withheld. 

(4)This section does not prohibit separate convictions and sentences for violation of this 

section and for felony violations of this chapter. 

(5)This section must be interpreted in concert with its federal analog, 21 U.S.C. s. 848. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 89-145; s. 25, ch. 93-406; s. 24, ch. 97-194. 

893.21 Drug-related overdoses; medical assistance; immunity from prosecution.— 

(1 )A person acting in good faith who seeks medical assistance for an individual experiencing a 

drug-related overdose may not be charged, prosecuted, or penalized pursuant to this chapter for 

possession of a controlled substance if the evidence for possession of a controlled substance was 



obtained as a result of the person's seeking medical assistance. 

(2)A person who experiences a drug-related overdose and is in need of medical assistance may 

not be charged, prosecuted, or penalized pursuant to this chapter for possession of a controlled 

substance if the evidence for possession of a controlled substance was obtained as a result of the 

overdose and the need for medical assistance. 

(3)Protection in this section from prosecution for possession offenses under this chapter may 

not be grounds for suppression of evidence in other criminal prosecutions. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 2012-36 



Title XXXII 
REGULATION OF PROFESSIONS AND OCCUPATIONS 

CHAPTER 456 

HEALTH PROFESSIONS AND OCCUPATIONS: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

456.001 Definitions. 

456.002 Applicability. 

456.003 Legislative intent; requirements. 

456.004 Department; powers and duties. 

456.005 Long-range policy planning. 

456.006 Contacting boards through department. 

456.007 Board members. 

456.008 Accountability and liability of board members. 

456.009 Legal and investigative services. 

456.011 Boards; organization; meetings; compensation and travel expenses. 

456.012 Board rules; final agency action; challenges. 

456.013 Department; general licensing provisions. 

456.0135 General background screening provisions. 

456.014 Public inspection of information required from applicants; exceptions; examination 

hearing. 

456.015 Limited licenses. 

456.016 Use of professional testing services. 

456.017 Examinations. 

456.018 Penalty for theft or reproduction of an examination. 

456.019 Restriction on requirement of citizenship. 

456.021 Qualification of immigrants for examination to practice a licensed profession or 

occupation. 

456.022 Foreign-trained professionals; special examination and license provisions. 

456.023 Exemption for certain out-of-state or foreign professionals; limited practice permitted. 

456.024 Members of Armed Forces in good standing with administrative boards or the department; 

spouses. 

456.025 Fees; receipts; disposition. 

456.026 Annual report concerning finances, administrative complaints, disciplinary actions, and 

recommendations. 

456.027 Education; accreditation. 

456.028 Consultation with postsecondary education boards prior to adoption of changes to training 

requirements. 

456.029 Education; substituting demonstration of competency for clock-hour requirements. 



456.031 Requirement for instruction on domestic violence. 

456.032 Hepatitis B or HIV carriers. 

456.033 Requirement for instruction for certain licensees on HIV and AIDS. 

456.035 Address of record. 

456.036 Licenses; active and inactive status; delinquency. 

456.037 Business establishments; requirements for active status licenses; delinquency; discipline; 

applicability. 

456.038 Renewal and cancellation notices. 

456.039 Designated health care professionals; information required for licensure. 

456.0391 Advanced registered nurse practitioners; information required for certification. 

456.0392 Prescription labeling. 

456.041 Practitioner profile; creation. 

456.042 Practitioner profiles; update. 

456.043 Practitioner profiles; data storage. 

456.044 Practitioner profiles; rules; workshops. 

456.045 Practitioner profiles; maintenance of superseded information. 

456.046 Practitioner profiles; confidentiality. 

456.048 Financial responsibility requirements for certain health care practitioners. 

456.049 Health care practitioners; reports on professional liability claims and actions. 

456.051 Reports of professional liability actions; bankruptcies; Department of Health's 

responsibility to provide. 

456.052 Disclosure of financial interest by production. 

456.053 Financial arrangements between referring health care providers and providers of health 

care services. 

456.054 Kickbacks prohibited. 

456.055 Chiropractic and podiatric health care; denial of payment; limitation. 

456.056 Treatment of Medicare beneficiaries; refusal, emergencies, consulting physicians. 

456.057 Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be furnished. 

456.0575 Duty to notify patients. 

456.058 Disposition of records of deceased practitioners or practitioners relocating or terminating 

practice. 

456.059 Communications confidential; exceptions. 

456.061 Practitioner disclosure of confidential information; immunity from civil or criminal 

liability. 

456.062 Advertisement by a health care practitioner of free or discounted services; required 

statement. 

456.063 Sexual misconduct; disqualification for license, certificate, or registration. 



456.0635 Health care fraud; disqualification for license, certificate, or registration. 

456.065 Unlicensed practice of a health care profession; intent; cease and desist notice; penalties; 

enforcement; citations; fees; allocation and disposition of moneys collected. 

456.066 Prosecution of criminal violations. 

456.067 Penalty for giving false information. 

456.068 Toll-free telephone number for reporting of complaints. 

456.069 Authority to inspect. 

456.071 Power to administer oaths, take depositions, and issue subpoenas. 

456.072 Grounds for discipline; penalties; enforcement. 

456.0721 Practitioners in default on student loan or scholarship obligations; investigation; report. 

456.073 Disciplinary proceedings. 

456.074 Certain health care practitioners; immediate suspension of license. 

456.075 Criminal proceedings against licensees; appearances by department representatives. 

456.076 Treatment programs for impaired practitioners. 

456.077 Authority to issue citations. 

456.078 Mediation. 

456.079 Disciplinary guidelines. 

456.081 Publication of information. 

456.082 Disclosure of confidential information. 

456.36 Health care professionals; exemption from disqualification from employment or 

contracting. 

456.38 Practitioner registry for disasters and emergencies. 

456.41 Complementary or alternative health care treatments. 

456.42 Written prescriptions for medicinal drugs. 

456.43 Electronic prescribing for medicinal drugs. 

456.44 Controlled substance prescribing. 

456.50 Repeated medical malpractice. 

45 6.001 Definitions.—As used in this chapter, the term: 

(1 )"Board" means any board or commission, or other statutorily created entity to the extent such 

entity is authorized to exercise regulatory or rulemaking functions, within the department, except 

that, for ss. 456.003-456.01 8, 456.022, 456.023, 456.025-456.034, and 456.039-456.082, "board" 

means only a board, or other statutorily created entity to the extent such entity is authorized to 

exercise regulatory or rulemaking functions, within the Division of Medical Quality Assurance. 

(2)"Consumer member" means a person appointed to serve on a specific board or who has served 

on a specific board, who is not, and never has been, a member or practitioner of the profession, or of 

any closely related profession, regulated by such board. 



(3)"Department" means the Department of Health. 

(4)"Health care practitioner" means any person licensed under chapter 457; chapter 458; chapter 

459; chapter 460; chapter 461; chapter 462; chapter 463; chapter 464; chapter 465; chapter 466; 

chapter 467; part I, part II, part III, part V, part X, part XIII, or part XIV of chapter 468; chapter 478; 

chapter 480; part III or part IV of chapter 483; chapter 484; chapter 486; chapter 490; or chapter 491. 

(5)"License" means any permit, registration, certificate, or license, including a provisional license, 

issued by the department. 

(6)"Licensee" means any person or entity issued a permit, registration, certificate, or license, 

including a provisional license, by the department. 

(7)"Profession" means any activity, occupation, profession, or vocation regulated by the 

department in the Division of Medical Quality Assurance. 

History.—s. 33, ch. 97-261; s. 72, ch. 99-397; s. 36, ch. 2000-160; s. 2, ch. 2002-199. 

Note.—Former s. 455.501. 

456.O02Applicability.—This chapter applies only to the regulation by the department of 

professions. 

History.—s. 34, ch. 97-261; s. 37, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.504. 

456.Oo3Legislative intent; requirements.— 

(1 )It is the intent of the Legislature that persons desiring to engage in any lawful profession 

regulated by the department shall be entitled to do so as a matter of right if otherwise qualified. 

(2)The Legislature further believes that such professions shall be regulated only for the 

preservation of the health, safety, and welfare of the public under the police powers of the state. Such 

professions shall be regulated when: 

(a)Their unregulated practice can harm or endanger the health, safety, and welfare of the public, 

and when the potential for such harm is recognizable and clearly outweighs any anticompetitive impact 

which may result from regulation. 

(b)The public is not effectively protected by other means, including, but not limited to, other 

state statutes, local ordinances, or federal legislation. 

(c)Less restrictive means of regulation are not available. 

(3)It is further legislative intent that the use of the term "profession" with respect to those 

activities licensed and regulated by the department shall not be deemed to mean that such activities 

are not occupations for other purposes in state or federal law. 

(4)(a)Neither the department nor any board may create unreasonably restrictive and extraordinary 

standards that deter qualified persons from entering the various professions. Neither the department 

nor any board may take any action that tends to create or maintain an economic condition that 

unreasonably restricts competition, except as specifically provided by law. 



(b)Neither the department nor any board may create a regulation that has an unreasonable effect 

on job creation or job retention in the state or that places unreasonable restrictions on the ability of 

individuals who seek to practice or who are practicing a profession or occupation to find employment. 

(c)The Legislature shall evaluate proposals to increase the regulation of regulated professions or 

occupations to determine the effect of increased regulation on job creation or retention and 

employment opportunities. 

(5)Policies adopted by the department shall ensure that all expenditures are made in the most 

cost-effective manner to maximize competition, minimize licensure costs, and maximize public access 

to meetings conducted for the purpose of professional regulation. The long-range planning function of 

the department shall be implemented to facilitate effective operations and to eliminate inefficiencies. 

(6)Unless expressly and specifically granted in statute, the duties conferred on the boards do not 

include the enlargement, modification, or contravention of the lawful scope of practice of the 

profession regulated by the boards. This subsection shall not prohibit the boards, or the department 

when there is no board, from taking disciplinary action or issuing a declaratory statement. 

History.—s. 38, ch. 97-261; s. 135, ch. 99-251; s. 38, ch. 2000-160; s. 57, ch. 2001 -277. 

Note.—Former s. 455.517. 

456.OO4Department; powers and duties.—The department, for the professions under its 

jurisdiction, shall: 

(1 )Adopt rules establishing a procedure for the biennial renewal of licenses; however, the 

department may issue up to a 4-year license to selected licensees notwithstanding any other provisions 

of law to the contrary. The rules shall specify the expiration dates of licenses and the process for 

tracking compliance with continuing education requirements, financial responsibility requirements, and 

any other conditions of renewal set forth in statute or rule. Fees for such renewal shall not exceed the 

fee caps for individual professions on an annualized basis as authorized by law. 

(2)Appoint the executive director of each board, subject to the approval of the board. 

(3)Submit an annual budget to the Legislature at a time and in the manner provided by law. 

(4)Develop a training program for persons newly appointed to membership on any board. The 

program shall familiarize such persons with the substantive and procedural laws and rules and fiscal 

information relating to the regulation of the appropriate profession and with the structure of the 

department. 

(5)Adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to implement the provisions of this chapter. 

(6)Establish by rules procedures by which the department shall use the expert or technical advice 

of the appropriate board for the purposes of investigation, inspection, evaluation of applications, other 

duties of the department, or any other areas the department may deem appropriate. 

(7)Require all proceedings of any board or panel thereof and all formal or informal proceedings 

conducted by the department, an administrative law judge, or a hearing officer with respect to 



licensing or discipline to be electronically recorded in a manner sufficient to assure the accurate 

transcription of all matters so recorded. 

(8)Select only those investigators, or consultants who undertake investigations, who meet criteria 

established with the advice of the respective boards. 

(9)Work cooperatively with the Department of Revenue to establish an automated method for 

periodically disclosing information relating to current licensees to the Department of Revenue, the 

state's Title IV-D agency. The purpose of this subsection is to promote the public policy of this state 

relating to child support as established in s. 409.2551. The department shall, when directed by the 

court or the Department of Revenue pursuant to s. 409.2598, suspend or deny the license of any 

licensee found not to be in compliance with a support order, a subpoena, an order to show cause, or a 

written agreement with the Department of Revenue. The department shall issue or reinstate the 

license without additional charge to the licensee when notified by the court or the Department of 

Revenue that the licensee has complied with the terms of the support order. The department is not 

liable for any license denial or suspension resulting from the discharge of its duties under this 

subsection. 

(10)Set an examination fee that includes all costs to develop, purchase, validate, administer, and 

defend the examination and is an amount certain to cover all administrative costs plus the actual per- 

applicant cost of the examination. 

(11 )Work cooperatively with the Agency for Health Care Administration and the judicial system to 

recover Medicaid overpayments by the Medicaid program. The department shall investigate and 

prosecute health care practitioners who have not remitted amounts owed to the state for an 

overpayment from the Medicaid program pursuant to a final order, judgment, or stipulation or 

settlement. 

History.—s. 39, ch. 97-261; s. 118, ch. 98-200; s. 74, ch. 99-397; s. 39, ch. 2000-160; s. 52, ch. 2001-158; s. 5, ch. 

2001 -277; s. 6, ch. 2008-92; s. 21, ch. 2009-223. 

Note.—Former s. 455.521. 

456.OO5Long-range policy planning.—To facilitate efficient and cost-effective regulation, the 

department and the board, if appropriate, shall develop and implement a long-range policy planning 

and monitoring process that includes recommendations specific to each profession. The process shall 

include estimates of revenues, expenditures, cash balances, and performance statistics for each 

profession. The period covered may not be less than 5 years. The department, with input from the 

boards and licensees, shall develop and adopt the long-range plan. The department shall monitor 

compliance with the plan and, with input from the boards and licensees, shall annually update the 

plans. The department shall provide concise management reports to the boards quarterly. As part of 

the review process, the department shall evaluate: 

(1 )Whether the department, including the boards and the various functions performed by the 



department, is operating efficiently and effectively and if there is a need for a board or council to 

assist in cost-effective regulation. 

(2)How and why the various professions are regulated. 

(3)Whether there is a need to continue regulation, and to what degree. 

(4)Whether or not consumer protection is adequate, and how it can be improved. 

(5)Whether there is consistency between the various practice acts. 

(6)Whether unlicensed activity is adequately enforced. 

The plans shall include conclusions and recommendations on these and other issues as appropriate. 

History.—s. 40, ch. 97-261; s. 40, ch. 2000-160; s. 61, ch. 2008-6; s. 148, ch. 2010-102. 

Note.—Former s. 455.524. 

456.OO6Contacting boards through department.—Each board under the jurisdiction of the 

department may be contacted through the headquarters of the department in the City of Tallahassee. 

History.—s. 41, ch. 97-261; s. 40, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.527. 

456.OO7Board members.—Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, any person who 

otherwise meets the requirements of law for board membership and who is connected in any way with 

any medical college, dental college, or community college may be appointed to any board so long as 

that connection does not result in a relationship wherein such college represents the person's principal 

source of income. However, this section shall not apply to the physicians required by s. 458.307(2) to 

be on the faculty of a medical school in this state or on the full-time staff of a teaching hospital in this 

state. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 84-161; s. 1, ch. 84-271; s. 3, ch. 88-392; s. 42, ch. 97-261; s. 17, ch. 97-264; s. 40, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.206; s. 455.531. 

456.OO8Accountability and liability of board members.— 

(1 )Each board member shall be accountable to the Governor for the proper performance of duties 

as a member of the board. The Governor shall investigate any legally sufficient complaint or 

unfavorable written report received by the Governor or by the department or a board concerning the 

actions of the board or its individual members. The Governor may suspend from office any board 

member for malfeasance, misfeasance, neglect of duty, drunkenness, incompetence, permanent 

inability to perform his or her official duties, or commission of a felony. 

(2)Each board member and each former board member serving on a probable cause panel shall be 

exempt from civil liability for any act or omission when acting in the member's official capacity, and 

the department shall defend any such member in any action against any board or member of a board 

arising from any such act or omission. In addition, the department may defend the member's company 

or business in any action against the company or business if the department determines that the 



actions from which the suit arises are actions taken by the member in the member's official capacity 

and were not beyond the member's statutory authority. In providing such defense, the department may 

employ or utilize the legal services of the Department of Legal Affairs or outside counsel retained 

pursuant to s. 287.059. Fees and costs of providing legal services provided under this subsection shall 

be paid from a trust fund used by the department to implement this chapter, subject to the provisions 

of s. 456.025. 

History.—s. 45, ch. 97-261; s. 21, ch. 99-7; s. 153, ch. 99-251; s. 41, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.541. 

456.OO9Legal and investigative services.— 

(1 )The department shall provide board counsel for boards within the department by contracting 

with the Department of Legal Affairs, by retaining private counsel pursuant to s. 287.059, or by 

providing department staff counsel. The primary responsibility of board counsel shall be to represent 

the interests of the citizens of the state. A board shall provide for the periodic review and evaluation 

of the services provided by its board counsel. Fees and costs of such counsel shall be paid from a trust 

fund used by the department to implement this chapter, subject to the provisions of s. 456.025. All 

contracts for independent counsel shall provide for periodic review and evaluation by the board and 

the department of services provided. 

(2)The department may employ or use the legal services of outside counsel and the investigative 

services of outside personnel. However, no attorney employed or utilized by the department shall 

prosecute a matter and provide legal services to the board with respect to the same matter. 

(3)Any person retained by the department under contract to review materials, make site visits, or 

provide expert testimony regarding any complaint or application filed with the department relating to 

a profession under the jurisdiction of the department shall be considered an agent of the department 

in determining the state insurance coverage and sovereign immunity protection applicability of ss. 

284.31 and 768.28. 

History.—s. 60, ch. 97-261; s. 154, ch. 99-251; s. 42, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.594. 

456.011 Boards; organization; meetings; compensation and travel expenses.— 

(1 )Each board within the department shall comply with the provisions of this chapter. 

(2)The board shall annually elect from among its number a chairperson and vice chairperson. 

(3)The board shall meet at least once annually and may meet as often as is necessary. Meetings 

shall be conducted through teleconferencing or other technological means, unless disciplinary hearings 

involving standard of care, sexual misconduct, fraud, impairment, or felony convictions; licensure 

denial hearings; or controversial rule hearings are being conducted; or unless otherwise approved in 

advance of the meeting by the director of the Division of Medical Quality Assurance. The chairperson or 

a quorum of the board shall have the authority to call meetings, except as provided above relating to 



in-person meetings. A quorum shall be necessary for the conduct of official business by the board or 

any committee thereof. Unless otherwise provided by law, 51 percent or more of the appointed 

members of the board or any committee, when applicable, shall constitute a quorum. The membership 

of committees of the board, except as otherwise authorized pursuant to this chapter or the applicable 

practice act, shall be composed of currently appointed members of the board. The vote of a majority 

of the members of the quorum shall be necessary for any official action by the board or committee. 

Three consecutive unexcused absences or absences constituting 50 percent or more of the board's 

meetings within any 12-month period shall cause the board membership of the member in question to 

become void, and the position shall be considered vacant. The board, or the department when there is 

no board, shall, by rule, define unexcused absences. 

(4)Unless otherwise provided by law, a board member or former board member serving on a 

probable cause panel shall be compensated $50 for each day in attendance at an official meeting of 

the board and for each day of participation in any other business involving the board. Each board shall 

adopt rules defining the phrase "other business involving the board," but the phrase may not routinely 

be defined to include telephone conference calls that last less than 4 hours. A board member also shall 

be entitled to reimbursement for expenses pursuant to s. 112.061. Travel out of state shall require the 

prior approval of the State Surgeon General. 

(5)When two or more boards have differences between them, the boards may elect to, or the State 

Surgeon General may request that the boards, establish a special committee to settle those 

differences. The special committee shall consist of three members designated by each board, who may 

be members of the designating board or other experts designated by the board, and of one additional 

person designated and agreed to by the members of the special committee. In the event the special 

committee cannot agree on the additional designee, upon request of the special committee, the State 

Surgeon General may select the designee. The committee shall recommend rules necessary to resolve 

the differences. If a rule adopted pursuant to this provision is challenged, the participating boards shall 

share the costs associated with defending the rule or rules. The department shall provide legal 

representation for any special committee established pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 43, ch. 97-261; s. 43, ch. 2000-160; s. 10, ch. 2001 -277; s. 62, ch. 2008-6. 

Note.—Former s. 455.534. 

456.01 2Board rules; final agency action; challenges.— 

(1 )The State Surgeon General shall have standing to challenge any rule or proposed rule of a board 

under its jurisdiction pursuant to s. 120.56. In addition to challenges for any invalid exercise of 

delegated legislative authority, the administrative law judge, upon such a challenge by the State 

Surgeon General, may declare all or part of a rule or proposed rule invalid if it: 

(a)Does not protect the public from any significant and discernible harm or damages; 

(b)Unreasonably restricts competition or the availability of professional services in the state or in a 



significant part of the state; or 

(c)Unnecessarily increases the cost of professional services without a corresponding or equivalent 

public benefit. 

However, there shall not be created a presumption of the existence of any of the conditions cited in 

this subsection in the event that the rule or proposed rule is challenged. 

(2)In addition, either the State Surgeon General or the board shall be a substantially interested 

party for purposes of s. 120.54(7). The board may, as an adversely affected party, initiate and maintain 

an action pursuant to s. 120.68 challenging the final agency action. 

(3)No board created within the department shall have standing to challenge a rule or proposed rule 

of another board. However, if there is a dispute between boards concerning a rule or proposed rule, 

the boards may avail themselves of the provisions of s. 456.011(5). 

History.—s. 46, ch. 97-261; s. 44, ch. 2000-160; s. 63, ch. 2008-6. 

Note.—Former s. 455.544. 

456.01 3Department; general licensing provisions. 

(1 )(a)Any person desiring to be licensed in a profession within the jurisdiction of the department 

shall apply to the department in writing to take the licensure examination. The application shall be 

made on a form prepared and furnished by the department. The application form must be available on 

the World Wide Web and the department may accept electronically submitted applications beginning 

July 1, 2001. The application shall require the social security number of the applicant, except as 

provided in paragraph (b). The form shall be supplemented as needed to reflect any material change in 

any circumstance or condition stated in the application which takes place between the initial filing of 

the application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the 

department. If an application is submitted electronically, the department may require supplemental 

materials, including an original signature of the applicant and verification of credentials, to be 

submitted in a nonelectronic format. An incomplete application shall expire 1 year after initial filing. 

In order to further the economic development goals of the state, and notwithstanding any law to the 

contrary, the department may enter into an agreement with the county tax collector for the purpose of 

appointing the county tax collector as the department's agent to accept applications for licenses and 

applications for renewals of licenses. The agreement must specify the time within which the tax 

collector must forward any applications and accompanying application fees to the department. 

(b)If an applicant has not been issued a social security number by the Federal Government at the 

time of application because the applicant is not a citizen or resident of this country, the department 

may process the application using a unique personal identification number. If such an applicant is 

otherwise eligible for licensure, the board, or the department when there is no board, may issue a 

temporary license to the applicant, which shall expire 30 days after issuance unless a social security 

number is obtained and submitted in writing to the department. Upon receipt of the applicant's social 



security number, the department shall issue a new license, which shall expire at the end of the current 

biennium. 

(2)Before the issuance of any license, the department shall charge an initial license fee as 

determined by the applicable board or, if there is no board, by rule of the department. Upon receipt of 

the appropriate license fee, the department shall issue a license to any person certified by the 

appropriate board, or its designee, as having met the licensure requirements imposed by law or rule. 

The license shall consist of a wallet-size identification card and a wall card measuring 61/2 inches by 5 

inches. The licensee shall surrender to the department the wallet-size identification card and the wall 

card if the licensee's license is issued in error or is revoked. 

(3)(a)The board, or the department when there is no board, may refuse to issue an initial license 

to any applicant who is under investigation or prosecution in any jurisdiction for an action that would 

constitute a violation of this chapter or the professional practice acts administered by the department 

and the boards, until such time as the investigation or prosecution is complete, and the time period in 

which the licensure application must be granted or denied shall be tolled until 1 5 days after the 

receipt of the final results of the investigation or prosecution. 

(b)If an applicant has been convicted of a felony related to the practice or ability to practice any 

health care profession, the board, or the department when there is no board, may require the 

applicant to prove that his or her civil rights have been restored. 

(c)In considering applications for licensure, the board, or the department when there is no board, 

may require a personal appearance of the applicant. If the applicant is required to appear, the time 

period in which a licensure application must be granted or denied shall be tolled until such time as the 

applicant appears. However, if the applicant fails to appear before the board at either of the next two 

regularly scheduled board meetings, or fails to appear before the department within 30 days if there is 

no board, the application for licensure shall be denied. 

(4)When any administrative law judge conducts a hearing pursuant to the provisions of chapter 120 

with respect to the issuance of a license by the department, the administrative law judge shall submit 

his or her recommended order to the appropriate board, which shall thereupon issue a final order. The 

applicant for licensure may appeal the final order of the board in accordance with the provisions of 

chapter 120. 

(5)A privilege against civil liability is hereby granted to any witness for any information furnished 

by the witness in any proceeding pursuant to this section, unless the witness acted in bad faith or with 

malice in providing such information. 

(6)As a condition of renewal of a license, the Board of Medicine, the Board of Osteopathic 

Medicine, the Board of Chiropractic Medicine, and the Board of Podiatric Medicine shall each require 

licensees which they respectively regulate to periodically demonstrate their professional competency 

by completing at least 40 hours of continuing education every 2 years. The boards may require by rule 

that up to 1 hour of the required 40 or more hours be in the area of risk management or cost 



containment. This provision shall not be construed to limit the number of hours that a licensee may 

obtain in risk management or cost containment to be credited toward satisfying the 40 or more 

required hours. This provision shall not be construed to require the boards to impose any requirement 

on licensees except for the completion of at least 40 hours of continuing education every 2 years. Each 

of such boards shall determine whether any specific continuing education requirements not otherwise 

mandated by law shall be mandated and shall approve criteria for, and the content of, any continuing 

education mandated by such board. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the board, or the 

department when there is no board, may approve by rule alternative methods of obtaining continuing 

education credits in risk management. The alternative methods may include attending a board meeting 

at which another licensee is disciplined, serving as a volunteer expert witness for the department in a 

disciplinary case, or serving as a member of a probable cause panel following the expiration of a board 

member's term. Other boards within the Division of Medical Quality Assurance, or the department if 

there is no board, may adopt rules granting continuing education hours in risk management for 

attending a board meeting at which another licensee is disciplined, for serving as a volunteer expert 

witness for the department in a disciplinary case, or for serving as a member of a probable cause panel 

following the expiration of a board member's term. 

(7)The boards, or the department when there is no board, shall require the completion of a 2-hour 

course relating to prevention of medical errors as part of the licensure and renewal process. The 2- 

hour course shall count towards the total number of continuing education hours required for the 

profession. The course shall be approved by the board or department, as appropriate, and shall include 

a study of root-cause analysis, error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. In addition, the 

course approved by the Board of Medicine and the Board of Osteopathic Medicine shall include 

information relating to the five most misdiagnosed conditions during the previous biennium, as 

determined by the board. If the course is being offered by a facility licensed pursuant to chapter 395 

for its employees, the board may approve up to 1 hour of the 2-hour course to be specifically related to 

error reduction and prevention methods used in that facility. 

(8)The respective boards within the jurisdiction of the department, or the department when there 

is no board, may adopt rules to provide for the use of approved videocassette courses, not to exceed 5 

hours per subject, to fulfill the continuing education requirements of the professions they regulate. 

Such rules shall provide for prior approval of the board, or the department when there is no board, of 

the criteria for and content of such courses and shall provide for a videocassette course validation form 

to be signed by the vendor and the licensee and submitted to the department, along with the license 

renewal application, for continuing education credit. 

(9)Any board that currently requires continuing education for renewal of a license, or the 

department if there is no board, shall adopt rules to establish the criteria for continuing education 

courses. The rules may provide that up to a maximum of 25 percent of the required continuing 

education hours can be fulfilled by the performance of pro bono services to the indigent or to 



underserved populations or in areas of critical need within the state where the licensee practices. The 

board, or the department if there is no board, must require that any pro bono services be approved in 

advance in order to receive credit for continuing education under this subsection. The standard for 

determining indigency shall be that recognized by the Federal Poverty Income Guidelines produced by 

the United States Department of Health and Human Services. The rules may provide for approval by the 

board, or the department if there is no board, that a part of the continuing education hours can be 

fulfilled by performing research in critical need areas or for training leading to advanced professional 

certification. The board, or the department if there is no board, may make rules to define underserved 

and critical need areas. The department shall adopt rules for administering continuing education 

requirements adopted by the boards or the department if there is no board. 

(10)Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, an elected official who is licensed under a practice 

act administered by the Division of Medical Quality Assurance may hold employment for compensation 

with any public agency concurrent with such public service. Such dual service must be disclosed 

according to any disclosure required by applicable law. 

(11 )In any instance in which a licensee or applicant to the department is required to be in 

compliance with a particular provision by, on, or before a certain date, and if that date occurs on a 

Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday, then the licensee or applicant is deemed to be in compliance with 

the specific date requirement if the required action occurs on the first succeeding day which is not a 

Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. 

(12)Pursuant to the federal Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 

1996, each party is required to provide his or her social security number in accordance with this 

section. Disclosure of social security numbers obtained through this requirement shall be limited to the 

purpose of administration of the Title IV-D program for child support enforcement. 

History.—s. 44, ch. 92-33; s. 1, ch. 93-27; s. 23, ch. 93-129; s. 27, ch. 95-144; s. 2, ch. 96-309; s. 209, ch. 96-410; s. 

1079, ch. 97-103; s. 64, ch. 97-170; s. 51, ch. 97-261; s. 54, ch. 97-278; ss. 7, 237, 262, ch. 98-166; s. 145, ch. 99-251; s. 

76, ch. 99-397; s. 45, ch. 2000-160; s. 20, ch. 2000-318; ss. 11, 68, ch. 2001-277; s. 11, ch. 2003-416; s. 1, ch. 2005-62. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2141; s. 455.564. 

456.013 5General background screening provisions.— 

(1 )An application for initial licensure received on or after January 1, 2013, under chapter 458, 

chapter 459, chapter 460, chapter 461, chapter 464, or s. 465.022 shall include fingerprints pursuant to 

procedures established by the department through a vendor approved by the Department of Law 

Enforcement and fees imposed for the initial screening and retention of fingerprints. Fingerprints must 

be submitted electronically to the Department of Law Enforcement for state processing, and the 

Department of Law Enforcement shall forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation 

for national processing. Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall screen the results to 

determine if an applicant meets licensure requirements. For any subsequent renewal of the applicant's 



license that requires a national criminal history check, the department shall request the Department of 

Law Enforcement to forward the retained fingerprints of the applicant to the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation. 

(2)All fingerprints submitted to the Department of Law Enforcement as required under subsection 

(1) shall be retained by the Department of Law Enforcement as provided under s. 943.05(2)(g) and (h) 

and (3). The department shall notify the Department of Law Enforcement regarding any person whose 

fingerprints have been retained but who is no longer licensed. 

(3)The costs of fingerprint processing, including the cost for retaining fingerprints, shall be borne 

by the applicant subject to the background screening. 

History.—s. 13, ch. 201 2-73. 

456.Ol4PubIic inspection of information required from applicants; exceptions; examination 

hearing. 

(1 )A1l information required by the department of any applicant shall be a public record and shall 

be open to public inspection pursuant to s. 119.07, except financial information, medical information, 

school transcripts, examination questions, answers, papers, grades, and grading keys, which are 

confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and shall not be discussed with or made accessible to 

anyone except the program director of an approved program or accredited program as provided in s. 

464.019(7), members of the board, the department, and staff thereof, who have a bona fide need to 

know such information. Any information supplied to the department by any other agency which is 

exempt from the provisions of chapter 119 or is confidential shall remain exempt or confidential 

pursuant to applicable law while in the custody of the department or the agency. 

(2)The department shall establish by rule the procedure by which an applicant, and the applicant's 

attorney, may review examination questions and answers. Examination questions and answers are not 

subject to discovery but may be introduced into evidence and considered only in camera in any 

administrative proceeding under chapter 120. If an administrative hearing is held, the department shall 

provide challenged examination questions and answers to the administrative law judge. The 

examination questions and answers provided at the hearing are confidential and exempt from s. 

119.07(1), unless invalidated by the administrative law judge. 

(3)Unless an applicant notifies the department at least 5 days prior to an examination hearing of 

the applicant's inability to attend, or unless an applicant can demonstrate an extreme emergency for 

failing to attend, the department may require an applicant who fails to attend to pay reasonable 

attorney's fees, costs, and court costs of the department for the examination hearing. 

History.—s. 76, ch. 97-261; s. 46, ch. 2000-160; s. 1, ch. 2010-37. 

Note.—Former s. 455.647. 

456.01 5Limited licenses.— 

(1 )It is the intent of the Legislature that, absent a threat to the health, safety, and welfare of the 



public, the use of retired professionals in good standing to serve the indigent, underserved, or critical 

need populations of this state should be encouraged. To that end, the board, or the department when 

there is no board, may adopt rules to permit practice by retired professionals as limited licensees 

under this section. 

(2)Any person desiring to obtain a limited license, when permitted by rule, shall submit to the 

board, or the department when there is no board, an application and fee, not to exceed $300, and an 

affidavit stating that the applicant has been licensed to practice in any jurisdiction in the United States 

for at least 10 years in the profession for which the applicant seeks a limited license. The affidavit 

shall also state that the applicant has retired or intends to retire from the practice of that profession 

and intends to practice only pursuant to the restrictions of the limited license granted pursuant to this 

section. If the applicant for a limited license submits a notarized statement from the employer stating 

that the applicant will not receive monetary compensation for any service involving the practice of her 

or his profession, the application and all licensure fees shall be waived. 

(3)The board, or the department when there is no board, may deny limited licensure to an 

applicant who has committed, or is under investigation or prosecution for, any act which would 

constitute the basis for discipline pursuant to the provisions of this chapter or the applicable practice 

act. 

(4)The recipient of a limited license may practice only in the employ of public agencies or 

institutions or nonprofit agencies or institutions which meet the requirements of s. 501 (c)(3) of the 

Internal Revenue Code, and which provide professional liability coverage for acts or omissions of the 

limited licensee. A limited licensee may provide services only to the indigent, underserved, or critical 

need populations within the state. The standard for determining indigency shall be that recognized by 

the Federal Poverty Income Guidelines produced by the United States Department of Health and 

Human Services. The board, or the department when there is no board, may adopt rules to define 

underserved and critical need areas and to ensure implementation of this section. 

(5)A board, or the department when there is no board, may provide by rule for supervision of 

limited licensees to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 

(6)Each applicant granted a limited license is subject to all the provisions of this chapter and the 

respective practice act under which the limited license is issued which are not in conflict with this 

section. 

(7)This section does not apply to chapter 458 or chapter 459. 

History.—s. 50, ch. 97-261; s. 22, ch. 99-7; s. 47, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.561. 

456.Ol6Use of professional testing services.—Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the 

contrary, the department may use a professional testing service to prepare, administer, grade, and 

evaluate any computerized examination, when that service is available and approved by the board, or 



the department if there is no board. 

History.—s. 53, ch. 97-261; s. 48, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.571. 

456.01 7Examinations.— 

(1 )(a)The department shalt provide, contract, or approve services for the development, 

preparation, administration, scoring, score reporting, and evaluation of all examinations, in 

consultation with the appropriate board. The department shalt certify that examinations developed 

and approved by the department adequately and reliably measure an applicant's ability to practice the 

profession regulated by the department. After an examination developed or approved by the 

department has been administered, the board, or the department when there is no board, may reject 

any question which does not reliably measure the general areas of competency specified in the rules of 

the board. The department may contract for the preparation, administration, scoring, score reporting, 

and evaluation of examinations, when such services are available and approved by the board. 

(b)For each examination developed by the department or contracted vendor, to the extent not 

otherwise specified by statute, the board, or the department when there is no board, shall by rule 

specify the general areas of competency to be covered by each examination, the relative weight to be 

assigned in grading each area tested, and the score necessary to achieve a passing grade. The 

department shall assess fees to cover the actual cost for any purchase, development, validation, 

administration, and defense of required examinations. This subsection does not apply to national 

examinations approved and administered pursuant to paragraph (c). If a practical examination is 

deemed to be necessary, the rules shall specify the criteria by which examiners are to be selected, the 

grading criteria to be used by the examiner, the relative weight to be assigned in grading each 

criterion, and the score necessary to achieve a passing grade. When a mandatory standardization 

exercise for a practical examination is required by law, the board, or the department when there is no 

board, may conduct such exercise. Therefore, board members, or employees of the department when 

there is no board, may serve as examiners at a practical examination with the consent of the board or 

department, as appropriate. 

(c)The board, or the department when there is no board, shall approve by rule the use of one or 

more national examinations that the department has certified as meeting requirements of national 

examinations and generally accepted testing standards pursuant to department rules. 

1 .Providers of examinations seeking certification shall pay the actual costs incurred by the 

department in making a determination regarding the certification. The name and number of a 

candidate may be provided to a national contractor for the limited purpose of preparing the grade tape 

and information to be returned to the board or department; or, to the extent otherwise specified by 

rule, the candidate may apply directly to the vendor of the national examination and supply test score 

information to the department. The department may delegate to the board the duty to provide and 



administer the examination. Any national examination approved by a board, or the department when 

there is no board, prior to October 1, 1997, is deemed certified under this paragraph. 

2.Neither the board nor the department may administer a state-developed written examination if a 

national examination has been certified by the department. The examination may be administered 

electronically if adequate security measures are used, as determined by rule of the department. 

3.The board, or the department when there is no board, may administer a state-developed 

practical or clinical examination, as required by the applicable practice act, if all costs of 

development, purchase, validation, administration, review, and defense are paid by the examination 

candidate prior to the administration of the examination. If a national practical or clinical examination 

is available and certified by the department pursuant to this section, the board, or the department 

when there is no board, may administer the national examination. 

4.It is the intent of the Legislature to reduce the costs associated with state examinations and to 

encourage the use of national examinations whenever possible. 

(d)Each board, or the department when there is no board, shall adopt rules regarding the security 

and monitoring of examinations. The department shall implement those rules adopted by the 

respective boards. In order to maintain the security of examinations, the department may employ the 

procedures set forth in s. 456.065 to seek fines and injunctive relief against an examinee who violates 

the provisions of s. 456.018 or the rules adopted pursuant to this paragraph. The department, or any 

agent thereof, may, for the purposes of investigation, confiscate any written, photographic, or 

recording material or device in the possession of the examinee at the examination site which the 

department deems necessary to enforce such provisions or rules. The scores of candidates who have 

taken state-developed examinations shall be provided to the candidates electronically using a 

candidate identification number, and the department shall post the aggregate scores on the 

department's website without identifying the names of the candidates. 

(e)If the professional board with jurisdiction over an examination concurs, the department may, 

for a fee, share with any other state's licensing authority or a national testing entity an examination or 

examination item bank developed by or for the department unless prohibited by a contract entered 

into by the department for development or purchase of the examination. The department, with the 

concurrence of the appropriate board, shall establish guidelines that ensure security of a shared exam 

and shall require that any other state's licensing authority comply with those guidelines. Those 

guidelines shall be approved by the appropriate professional board. All fees paid by the user shall be 

applied to the department's examination and development program for professions regulated by this 

chapter. 

(f)The department may adopt rules necessary to administer this subsection. 

(2)For each examination developed by the department or a contracted vendor, the board, or the 

department when there is no board, shall adopt rules providing for reexamination of any applicants 

who failed an examination developed by the department or a contracted vendor. If both a written and 



a practical examination are given, an applicant shall be required to retake only the portion of the 

examination on which the applicant failed to achieve a passing grade, if the applicant successfully 

passes that portion within a reasonable time, as determined by rule of the board, or the department 

when there is no board, of passing the other portion. Except for national examinations approved and 

administered pursuant to this section, the department shall provide procedures for applicants who fail 

an examination developed by the department or a contracted vendor to review their examination 

questions, answers, papers, grades, and grading key for the questions the candidate answered 

incorrectly or, if not feasible, the parts of the examination failed. Applicants shall bear the actual cost 

for the department to provide examination review pursuant to this subsection. An applicant may waive 

in writing the confidentiality of the applicant's examination grades. Notwithstanding any other 

provisions, only candidates who fail an examination with a score that is less than 10 percent below the 

minimum score required to pass the examination shall be entitled to challenge the validity of the 

examination at hearing. 

(3)For each examination developed or administered by the department or a contracted vendor, an 

accurate record of each applicant's examination questions, answers, papers, grades, and grading key 

shall be kept for a period of not less than 2 years immediately following the examination, and such 

record shall thereafter be maintained or destroyed as provided in chapters 119 and 257. This 

subsection does not apply to national examinations approved and administered pursuant to this 

section. 

(4)Meetings of any member of the department or of any board within the department held for the 

exclusive purpose of creating or reviewing licensure examination questions or proposed examination 

questions are exempt from the provisions of s. 286.011 and s. 24(b), Art. I of the State Constitution. 

Any public records, such as tape recordings, minutes, or notes, generated during or as a result of such 

meetings are confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the 

State Constitution. However, these exemptions shall not affect the right of any person to review an 

examination as provided in subsection (2). 

(5)For examinations developed by the department or a contracted vendor, each board, or the 

department when there is no board, may provide licensure examinations in an applicant's native 

language. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, applicants for examination or reexamination 

pursuant to this subsection shall bear the full cost for the department's development, preparation, 

validation, administration, grading, and evaluation of any examination in a language other than English 

prior to the examination being administered. Requests for translated examinations must be on file in 

the board office at least 6 months prior to the scheduled examination. When determining whether it is 

in the public interest to allow the examination to be translated into a language other than English, the 

board shall consider the percentage of the population who speak the applicant's native language. 

Applicants must apply for translation to the applicable board at least 6 months prior to the scheduled 

examination. 



(6)In addition to meeting any other requirements for licensure by examination or by endorsement, 

and notwithstanding the provisions in paragraph (1 )(c), an applicant may be required by a board, or the 

department when there is no board, to certify competency in state laws and rules relating to the 

applicable practice act. Beginning October 1, 2001, all laws and rules examinations shall be 

administered electronically unless the laws and rules examination is administered concurrently with 

another written examination for that profession or unless the electronic administration would be 

substantially more expensive. 

(7)The department may post examination scores electronically on the Internet in lieu of mailing 

the scores to each applicant. The electronic posting of the examination scores meets the requirements 

of chapter 120 if the department also posts along with the examination scores a notification of the 

rights set forth in chapter 120. The date of receipt for purposes of chapter 120 is the date the 

examination scores are posted electronically. The department shall also notify the applicant when 

scores are posted electronically of the availability of postexamination review, if applicable. 

History.—s. 46, ch. 92-33; s. 23, ch. 93-129; s. 1, ch. 95-367; s. 304, ch. 96-406; s. 1081, ch. 97-103; s. 54, ch. 97-261; 

s. 238, ch. 98-166; s. 79, ch. 99-397; s. 49, ch. 2000-160; s. 46, ch. 2000-318; s. 12, ch. 2001-277; s. 2, ch. 2005-62. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2173; s. 455.574. 

456.Ol8PenaIty for theft or reproduction of an examination.—In addition to, or in lieu of, any 

other discipline imposed pursuant to s. 456.072, the theft of an examination in whole or in part or the 

act of reproducing or copying any examination administered by the department, whether such 

examination is reproduced or copied in part or in whole and by any means, constitutes a felony of the 

third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

History.—s. 55, ch. 97-261; s. 50, ch. 2000-160; s. 27, ch. 2000-318. 

Note.—Former s. 455.577. 

456.Ol9Restriction on requirement of citizenship.—A person is not disqualified from practicing 

an occupation or profession regulated by the state solely because she or he is not a United States 

citizen. 

History.—s. 36, ch. 97-261; s. 20, ch. 99-7; s. 51, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.511. 

456.O2lQualification of immigrants for examination to practice a licensed profession or 

occupation.— 

(1 )It is the declared purpose of this section to encourage the use of foreign-speaking Florida 

residents duly qualified to become actively qualified in their professions so that all people of this state 

may receive better services. 

(2)Any person who has successfully completed, or is currently enrolled in, an approved course of 

study created pursuant to chapters 74-105 and 75-177, Laws of Florida, shall be deemed qualified for 



examination and reexaminations for a professional or occupational license which shall be administered 

in the English language unless 1 5 or more such applicants request that the reexamination be 

administered in their native language. In the event that such reexamination is administered in a foreign 

language, the full cost to the board of preparing and administering it shall be borne by the applicants. 

(3)Each board within the department shall adopt and implement programs designed to qualify for 

examination all persons who were resident nationals of the Republic of Cuba and who, on July 1, 1977, 

were residents of this state. 

History.—s. 37, ch. 97-261; s. 51, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.514. 

456.O22Foreign-trained professionals; special examination and license provisions.— 

(1)When not otherwise provided by law, within its jurisdiction, the department shall by rule 

provide procedures under which exiled professionals may be examined within each practice act. A 

person shall be eligible for such examination if the person: 

(a)Immigrated to the United States after leaving the person's home country because of political 

reasons, provided such country is located in the Western Hemisphere and lacks diplomatic relations 

with the United States; 

(b)Applies to the department and submits a fee; 

(c)Was a Florida resident immediately preceding the person's application; 

(d)Demonstrates to the department, through submission of documentation verified by the 

applicant's respective professional association in exile, that the applicant was graduated with an 

appropriate professional or occupational degree from a college or university; however, the department 

may not require receipt of any documentation from the Republic of Cuba as a condition of eligibility 

under this section; 

(e)Lawfully practiced the profession for at least 3 years; 

(f)Prior to 1980, successfully completed an approved course of study pursuant to chapters 74-105 

and 75-177, Laws of Florida; and 

(g)Presents a certificate demonstrating the successful completion of a continuing education 

program which offers a course of study that will prepare the applicant for the examination offered 

under subsection (2). The department shall develop rules for the approval of such programs for its 

boards. 

(2)Upon request of a person who meets the requirements of subsection (1) and submits an 

examination fee, the department, for its boards, shall provide a written practical examination which 

tests the person's current ability to practice the profession competently in accordance with the actual 

practice of the profession. Evidence of meeting the requirements of subsection (1) shall be treated by 

the department as evidence of the applicant's preparation in the academic and preprofessional 

fundamentals necessary for successful professional practice, and the applicant shall not be examined 



by the department on such fundamentals. 

(3)The fees charged for the examinations offered under subsection (2) shall be established by the 

department, for its boards, by rule and shall be sufficient to develop or to contract for the 

development of the examination and its administration, grading, and grade reviews. 

(4)The department shall examine any applicant who meets the requirements of subsections (1) and 

(2). Upon passing the examination and the issuance of the license, a licensee is subject to the 

administrative requirements of this chapter and the respective practice act under which the license is 

issued. Each applicant so licensed is subject to all provisions of this chapter and the respective practice 

act under which the license was issued. 

(5)Upon a request by an applicant otherwise qualified under this section, the examinations offered 

under subsection (2) may be given in the applicant's native language, provided that any translation 

costs are borne by the applicant. 

(6)The department, for its boards, shall not issue an initial license to, or renew a license of, any 

applicant or licensee who is under investigation or prosecution in any jurisdiction for an action which 

would constitute a violation of this chapter or the professional practice acts administered by the 

department and the boards until such time as the investigation or prosecution is complete, at which 

time the provisions of the professional practice acts shall apply. 

History.—s. 56, ch. 97-261; s. 52, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.581. 

456.O23Exemption for certain out-of-state or foreign professionals; limited practice 

permitted. 

(1 )A professional of any other state or of any territory or other jurisdiction of the United States or 

of any other nation or foreign jurisdiction is exempt from the requirements of licensure under this 

chapter and the applicable professional practice act under the agency with regulatory jurisdiction over 

the profession if that profession is regulated in this state under the agency with regulatory jurisdiction 

over the profession and if that person: 

(a)Holds, if so required in the jurisdiction in which that person practices, an active license to 

practice that profession. 

(b)Engages in the active practice of that profession outside the state. 

(c)Is employed or designated in that professional capacity by a sports entity visiting the state for a 

specific sporting event. 

(2)A professional's practice under this section is limited to the members, coaches, and staff of the 

team for which that professional is employed or designated and to any animals used if the sporting 

event for which that professional is employed or designated involves animals. A professional practicing 

under authority of this section shall not have practice privileges in any licensed health care facility or 

veterinary facility without the approval of that facility. 





(c)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall review the results of the state and 

federal criminal history checks according to the level 2 screening standards in s. 435.04 when granting 

an exemption and when granting or denying the temporary license. 

(d)The applicant shall pay the cost of fingerprint processing. If the fingerprints are submitted 

through an authorized agency or vendor, the agency or vendor shall collect the required processing 

fees and remit the fees to the Department of Law Enforcement. 

(e)The department shall set an application fee, which may not exceed the cost of issuing the 

license. 

(f)A temporary license expires 12 months after the date of issuance and is not renewable. 

(g)An applicant for a temporary license under this subsection is subject to the requirements under 

s. 456.013(3)(a) and (c). 

(h)An applicant shall be deemed ineligible for a temporary license pursuant to this section if the 

applicant: 

1 .Has been convicted of or pled nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, any felony or 

misdemeanor related to the practice of a health care profession; 

2.Has had a health care provider license revoked or suspended from another of the United States, 

the District of Columbia, or a United States territory; 

3.Has been reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank, unless the applicant has successfully 

appealed to have his or her name removed from the data bank; or 

4.Has previously failed the Florida examination required to receive a license to practice the 

profession for which the applicant is seeking a license. 

(i)The board, or department if there is no board, may revoke a temporary license upon finding that 

the individual violated the profession's governing practice act. 

(j)An applicant who is issued a temporary professional license to practice as a dentist pursuant to 

this section must practice under the indirect supervision, as defined in s. 466.003, of a dentist licensed 

pursuant to chapter 466. 

History.—s. 35, ch. 97-261; s. 19, ch. 99-7; s. 73, ch. 99-397; s. 54, ch. 2000-160; s. 1, ch. 2011-95. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.507. 

456.O25Fees; receipts; disposition.— 

(1 )It is the intent of the Legislature that all costs of regulating health care professions and 

practitioners shall be borne solely by licensees and licensure applicants. It is also the intent of the 

Legislature that fees should be reasonable and not serve as a barrier to licensure. Moreover, it is the 

intent of the Legislature that the department operate as efficiently as possible and regularly report to 

the Legislature additional methods to streamline operational costs. Therefore, the boards in 

consultation with the department, or the department if there is no board, shall, by rule, set renewal 

fees which: 



(a)Shall be based on revenue projections prepared using generally accepted accounting 

procedures; 

(b)Shall be adequate to cover all expenses relating to that board identified in the department's 

long-range policy plan, as required by s. 456.005; 

(c)Shall be reasonable, fair, and not serve as a barrier to licensure; 

(d)Shall be based on potential earnings from working under the scope of the license; 

(e)Shall be similar to fees imposed on similar licensure types; 

(f)Shall not be more than 10 percent greater than the actual cost to regulate that profession for 

the previous biennium; and 

(g)Shall be subject to challenge pursuant to chapter 120. 

(2)The chairpersons of the boards and councils listed in s. 20.43(3)(g) shall meet annually at 

division headquarters to review the long-range policy plan required by s. 456.005 and current and 

proposed fee schedules. The chairpersons shall make recommendations for any necessary statutory 

changes relating to fees and fee caps. Such recommendations shall be compiled by the Department of 

Health and be included in the annual report to the Legislature required by s. 456.026 as well as be 

included in the long-range policy plan required by s. 456.005. 

(3)Each board within the jurisdiction of the department, or the department when there is no 

board, shall determine by rule the amount of license fees for the profession it regulates, based upon 

long-range estimates prepared by the department of the revenue required to implement laws relating 

to the regulation of professions by the department and the board. Each board, or the department if 

there is no board, shall ensure that license fees are adequate to cover all anticipated costs and to 

maintain a reasonable cash balance, as determined by rule of the agency, with advice of the applicable 

board. If sufficient action is not taken by a board within 1 year after notification by the department 

that license fees are projected to be inadequate, the department shall set license fees on behalf of the 

applicable board to cover anticipated costs and to maintain the required cash balance. The department 

shall include recommended fee cap increases in its annual report to the Legislature. Further, it is the 

legislative intent that no regulated profession operate with a negative cash balance. The department 

may provide by rule for advancing sufficient funds to any profession operating with a negative cash 

balance. The advancement may be for a period not to exceed 2 consecutive years, and the regulated 

profession must pay interest. Interest shall be calculated at the current rate earned on investments of 

a trust fund used by the department to implement this chapter. Interest earned shall be allocated to 

the various funds in accordance with the allocation of investment earnings during the period of the 

advance. 

(4)Each board, or the department if there is no board, may charge a fee not to exceed $25, as 

determined by rule, for the issuance of a wall certificate pursuant to s. 456.01 3(2) requested by a 

licensee who was licensed prior to July 1, 1998, or for the issuance of a duplicate wall certificate 

requested by any licensee. 



(5)Each board, or the department if there is no board, may, by rule, assess and collect a one-time 

fee from each active status licensee and each inactive status licensee in an amount necessary to 

eliminate a cash deficit or, if there is not a cash deficit, in an amount sufficient to maintain the 

financial integrity of the professions as required in this section. Not more than one such assessment 

may be made in any 4-year period without specific legislative authorization. 

(6)If the cash balance of the trust fund at the end of any fiscal year exceeds the total 

appropriation provided for the regulation of the health care professions in the prior fiscal year, the 

boards, in consultation with the department, may lower the license renewal fees. 

(7)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall establish, by rule, a fee not to exceed 

$250 for anyone seeking approval to provide continuing education courses or programs and shall 

establish by rule a biennial renewal fee not to exceed $250 for the renewal of providership of such 

courses. The fees collected from continuing education providers shall be used for the purposes of 

reviewing course provider applications, monitoring the integrity of the courses provided, covering legal 

expenses incurred as a result of not granting or renewing a providership, and developing and 

maintaining an electronic continuing education tracking system. The department shall implement an 

electronic continuing education tracking system for each new biennial renewal cycle for which 

electronic renewals are implemented after the effective date of this act and shall integrate such 

system into the licensure and renewal system. All approved continuing education providers shall 

provide information on course attendance to the department necessary to implement the electronic 

tracking system. The department shall, by rule, specify the form and procedures by which the 

information is to be submitted. 

(8)All moneys collected by the department from fees or fines or from costs awarded to the agency 

by a court shall be paid into a trust fund used by the department to implement this chapter. The 

Legislature shall appropriate funds from this trust fund sufficient to carry out this chapter and the 

provisions of law with respect to professions regulated by the Division of Medical Quality Assurance 

within the department and the boards. The department may contract with public and private entities 

to receive and deposit revenue pursuant to this section. The department shall maintain separate 

accounts in the trust fund used by the department to implement this chapter for every profession 

within the department. To the maximum extent possible, the department shall directly charge all 

expenses to the account of each regulated profession. For the purpose of this subsection, direct charge 

expenses include, but are not limited to, costs for investigations, examinations, and legal services. For 

expenses that cannot be charged directly, the department shall provide for the proportionate 

allocation among the accounts of expenses incurred by the department in the performance of its duties 

with respect to each regulated profession. The regulation by the department of professions, as defined 

in this chapter, shall be financed solely from revenue collected by it from fees and other charges and 

deposited in the Medical Quality Assurance Trust Fund, and all such revenue is hereby appropriated to 

the department. However, it is legislative intent that each profession shall operate within its 





disciplinary proceeding not before the Division of Administrative Hearings under chapter 120 or 

otherwise not completed within 1 year after the initial filing of a complaint under this chapter. 

(9)The status of the development and implementation of rules providing for disciplinary guidelines 

pursuant to s. 456.079. 

(10)Such recommendations for administrative and statutory changes necessary to facilitate 

efficient and cost-effective operation of the department and the various boards. 

History.—s. 75, ch. 97-261; s. 56, ch. 2000-160; s. 4, ch. 2002-254. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.644. 

456.O27Education; accreditation.—Notwithstanding any other provision of law, educational 

programs and institutions which are required by statute to be accredited, but which were accredited 

by an agency that has since ceased to perform an accrediting function, shall be recognized until such 

programs and institutions are accredited by a qualified successor to the original accrediting agency, an 

accrediting agency recognized by the United States Department of Education, or an accrediting agency 

recognized by the board, or the department when there is no board. 

History.—s. 48, ch. 97-261; s. 57, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.551. 

456.O28Consultation with postsecondary education boards prior to adoption of changes to 

training requirements.—Any state agency or board that has jurisdiction over the regulation of a 

profession or occupation shall consult with the Commission for Independent Education, the Board of 

Governors of the State University System, and the State Board of Education prior to adopting any 

changes to training requirements relating to entry into the profession or occupation. This consultation 

must allow the educational board to provide advice regarding the impact of the proposed changes in 

terms of the length of time necessary to complete the training program and the fiscal impact of the 

changes. The educational board must be consulted only when an institution offering the training 

program falls under its jurisdiction. 

History.—s. 49, ch. 97-261; s. 35, ch. 98-421; s. 57, ch. 2000-160; s. 72, ch. 2004-5; s. 14, ch. 2004-41; s. 54, ch. 2007- 

217. 

Note.—Former s. 455.554. 

456.O29Education; substituting demonstration of competency for clock-hour requirements.— 

Any board, or the department when there is no board, that requires student completion of a specific 

number of clock hours of classroom instruction for initial licensure purposes shall establish the minimal 

competencies that such students must demonstrate in order to be licensed. The demonstration of such 

competencies may be substituted for specific classroom clock-hour requirements established in statute 

or rule which are related to instructional programs for licensure purposes. Student demonstration of 

the established minimum competencies shall be certified by the educational institution. The provisions 



of this section shall not apply to boards for which federal licensure standards are more restrictive or 

stringent than the standards prescribed in statute. 

History.—s. 47, ch. 97-261; s. 57, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.547. 

456.03 IRequirement for instruction on domestic violence.— 

(1 )(a)The appropriate board shall require each person licensed or certified under chapter 458, 

chapter 459, part I of chapter 464, chapter 466, chapter 467, chapter 490, or chapter 491 to complete 

a 2-hour continuing education course, approved by the board, on domestic violence, as defined in s. 

741 .28, as part of every third biennial relicensure or recertification. The course shall consist of 

information on the number of patients in that professional's practice who are likely to be victims of 

domestic violence and the number who are likely to be perpetrators of domestic violence, screening 

procedures for determining whether a patient has any history of being either a victim or a perpetrator 

of domestic violence, and instruction on how to provide such patients with information on, or how to 

refer such patients to, resources in the local community, such as domestic violence centers and other 

advocacy groups, that provide legal aid, shelter, victim counseling, batterer counseling, or child 

protection services. 

(b)Each such licensee or certificateholder shall submit confirmation of having completed such 

course, on a form provided by the board, when submitting fees for every third biennial renewal. 

(c)The board may approve additional equivalent courses that may be used to satisfy the 

requirements of paragraph (a). Each licensing board that requires a licensee to complete an 

educational course pursuant to this subsection may include the hour required for completion of the 

course in the total hours of continuing education required by law for such profession unless the 

continuing education requirements for such profession consist of fewer than 30 hours biennially. 

(d)Any person holding two or more licenses subject to the provisions of this subsection shall be 

permitted to show proof of having taken one board-approved course on domestic violence, for purposes 

of relicensure or recertification for additional licenses. 

(e)Failure to comply with the requirements of this subsection shall constitute grounds for 

disciplinary action under each respective practice act and under s. 456.072(1 )(k). In addition to 

discipline by the board, the licensee shall be required to complete such course. 

(2)Each board may adopt rules to carry out the provisions of this section. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 95-187; s. 61, ch. 97-261; s. 58, ch. 2000-160; s. 6, ch. 2000-295; s. 112, ch. 2000-318; s. 1, ch. 

2001-176; s. 1, ch. 2001-250; s. 105, ch. 2001-277; s. 1, ch. 2006-251. 

Note.—Former s. 455.222; s. 455.597. 

456.O32Hepatitis B or HIV carriers.— 

(1 )The department and each appropriate board within the Division of Medical Quality Assurance 

shall have the authority to establish procedures to handle, counsel, and provide other services to 



health care professionals within their respective boards who are infected with hepatitis B or the human 

immunodeficiency virus. 

(2)Any person licensed by the department and any other person employed by a health care facility 

who contracts a blood-borne infection shall have a rebuttable presumption that the illness was 

contracted in the course and scope of his or her employment, provided that the person, as soon as 

practicable, reports to the person's supervisor or the facility's risk manager any significant exposure, 

as that term is defined in s. 381 .004(1 )(c), to blood or body fluids. The employer may test the blood or 

body fluid to determine if it is infected with the same disease contracted by the employee. The 

employer may rebut the presumption by the preponderance of the evidence. Except as expressly 

provided in this subsection, there shall be no presumption that a blood-borne infection is a job-related 

injury or illness. 

History.—s. 75, ch. 91 -297; s. 76, ch. 94-218; s. 62, ch. 97-261; s. 81, ch. 99-397; s. 59, ch. 2000-160; s. 121, ch. 2012- 

184. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2224; s. 455.601. 

456.O33Requirement for instruction for certain licensees on HIV and AIDS.—The following 

requirements apply to each person licensed or certified under chapter 457; chapter 458; chapter 459; 

chapter 460; chapter 461; chapter 463; part I of chapter 464; chapter 465; chapter 466; part II, part III, 

part V, or part X of chapter 468; or chapter 486: 

(1 )Each person shall be required by the appropriate board to complete no later than upon first 

renewal a continuing educational course, approved by the board, on human immunodeficiency virus 

and acquired immune deficiency syndrome as part of biennial relicensure or recertification. The course 

shall consist of education on the modes of transmission, infection control procedures, clinical 

management, and prevention of human immunodeficiency virus and acquired immune deficiency 

syndrome. Such course shall include information on current Florida law on acquired immune deficiency 

syndrome and its impact on testing, confidentiality of test results, treatment of patients, and any 

protocols and procedures applicable to human immunodeficiency virus counseling and testing, 

reporting, the offering of HIV testing to pregnant women, and partner notification issues pursuant to 

ss. 381.004 and 384.25. 

(2)Each person shall submit confirmation of having completed the course required under subsection 

(1), on a form as provided by the board, when submitting fees for first renewal. 

(3)The board shall have the authority to approve additional equivalent courses that may be used to 

satisfy the requirements in subsection (1). Each licensing board that requires a licensee to complete an 

educational course pursuant to this section may count the hours required for completion of the course 

included in the total continuing educational requirements as required by law. 

(4)Any person holding two or more licenses subject to the provisions of this section shall be 

permitted to show proof of having taken one board-approved course on human immunodeficiency virus 



and acquired immune deficiency syndrome, for purposes of relicensure or recertification for additional 

licenses. 

(5)Failure to comply with the above requirements shall constitute grounds for disciplinary action 

under each respective licensing chapter and s. 456.072(1 )(e). In addition to discipline by the board, the 

licensee shall be required to complete the course. 

History.—s. 63, ch. 97-261; s. 4, ch. 98-171; S. 9, ch. 99-331; s. 82, ch. 99-397; s. 60, ch. 2000-160; s. 113, ch. 2000- 

318; s. 2, ch. 2001-176; s. 2, ch. 2001-250; s. 106, ch. 2001-277; s. 2, ch. 2006-251. 

Note.—Former s. 455.604. 

456.O35Address of record.— 

(1 )Each licensee of the department is solely responsible for notifying the department in writing of 

the licensee's current mailing address and place of practice, as defined by rule of the board or the 

department if there is no board. Electronic notification shall be allowed by the department; however, 

it shall be the responsibility of the licensee to ensure that the electronic notification was received by 

the department. A licensee's failure to notify the department of a change of address constitutes a 

violation of this section, and the licensee may be disciplined by the board or the department if there is 

no board. 

(2)Notwithstanding any other law, service by regular mail to a licensee's last known address of 

record with the department constitutes adequate and sufficient notice to the licensee for any official 

communication to the licensee by the board or the department except when other service is required 

under s. 456.076. 

History.—s. 97, ch. 97-261; s. 39, ch. 98-166; s. 62, ch. 2000-160; s. 13, ch. 2001-277. 

Note.—Former s. 455.71 7. 

456.O36Licenses; active and inactive status; delinquency.— 

(1 )A licensee may practice a profession only if the licensee has an active status license. A licensee 

who practices a profession with an inactive status license, a retired status license, or a delinquent 

license is in violation of this section and s. 456.072, and the board, or the department if there is no 

board, may impose discipline on the licensee. 

(2)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall permit a licensee to choose, at the 

time of licensure renewal, an active, inactive, or retired status. 

(3)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall by rule impose a fee for renewal of an 

active or inactive status license. The renewal fee for an inactive status license may not exceed the fee 

for an active status license. 

(4)Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, a licensee may change licensure 

status at any time. 

(a)Active status licensees choosing inactive status at the time of license renewal must pay the 

inactive status renewal fee, and, if applicable, the delinquency fee and the fee to change licensure 



status. Active status licensees choosing inactive status at any other time than at the time of license 

renewal must pay the fee to change licensure status. 

(b)An active status licensee or an inactive status licensee who chooses retired status at the time of 

license renewal must pay the retired status fee, which may not exceed $50 as established by rule of 

the board or the department if there is no board. An active status licensee or inactive status licensee 

who chooses retired status at any time other than at the time of license renewal must pay the retired 

status fee plus a change-of-status fee. 

(c)An inactive status licensee may change to active status at any time, if the licensee meets all 

requirements for active status. Inactive status licensees choosing active status at the time of license 

renewal must pay the active status renewal fee, any applicable reactivation fees as set by the board, 

or the department if there is no board, and, if applicable, the delinquency fee and the fee to change 

licensure status. Inactive status licensees choosing active status at any other time than at the time of 

license renewal must pay the difference between the inactive status renewal fee and the active status 

renewal fee, if any exists, any applicable reactivation fees as set by the board, or the department if 

there is no board, and the fee to change licensure status. 

(5)A licensee must apply with a complete application, as defined by rule of the board, or the 

department if there is no board, to renew an active or inactive status license before the license 

expires. If a licensee fails to renew before the license expires, the license becomes delinquent in the 

license cycle following expiration. 

(6)A delinquent licensee must affirmatively apply with a complete application, as defined by rule 

of the board, or the department if there is no board, for active or inactive status during the licensure 

cycle in which a licensee becomes delinquent. Failure by a delinquent licensee to become active or 

inactive before the expiration of the current licensure cycle renders the license null without any 

further action by the board or the department. Any subsequent licensure shall be as a result of 

applying for and meeting all requirements imposed on an applicant for new licensure. 

(7)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall by rule impose an additional 

delinquency fee, not to exceed the biennial renewal fee for an active status license, on a delinquent 

licensee when such licensee applies for active or inactive status. 

(8)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall by rule impose an additional fee, not 

to exceed the biennial renewal fee for an active status license, for processing a licensee's request to 

change licensure status at any time other than at the beginning of a licensure cycle. 

(9)Each board, or the department if there is no board, may by rule impose reasonable conditions, 

excluding full reexamination but including part of a national examination or a special purpose 

examination to assess current competency, necessary to ensure that a licensee who has been on 

inactive status for more than two consecutive biennial licensure cycles and who applies for active 

status can practice with the care and skill sufficient to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the 

public. Reactivation requirements may differ depending on the length of time licensees are inactive. 



The costs to meet reactivation requirements shall be borne by licensees requesting reactivation. 

(10)Each board, or the department if there is no board, may by rule impose reasonable conditions, 

including full reexamination to assess current competency, in order to ensure that a licensee who has 

been on retired status for more than 5 years, or a licensee from another state who has not been in 

active practice within the past 5 years, and who applies for active status is able to practice with the 

care and skill sufficient to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. Requirements for 

reactivation of a license may differ depending on the length of time a licensee has been retired. 

(11 )Before reactivation, an inactive status licensee or a delinquent licensee who was inactive prior 

to becoming delinquent must meet the same continuing education requirements, if any, imposed on an 

active status licensee for all biennial licensure periods in which the licensee was inactive or 

delinquent. 

(12)Before the license of a retired status licensee is reactivated, the licensee must meet the same 

requirements for continuing education, if any, and pay any renewal fees imposed on an active status 

licensee for all biennial licensure periods during which the licensee was on retired status. 

(13)The status or a change in status of a licensee does not alter in any way the right of the board, 

or of the department if there is no board, to impose discipline or to enforce discipline previously 

imposed on a licensee for acts or omissions committed by the licensee while holding a license, whether 

active, inactive, retired, or delinquent. 

(14)A person who has been denied renewal of licensure, certification, or registration under s. 

456.0635(3) may regain licensure, certification, or registration only by meeting the qualifications and 

completing the application process for initial licensure as defined by the board, or the department if 

there is no board. However, a person who was denied renewal of licensure, certification, or 

registration under s. 24, chapter 2009-223, Laws of Florida, between July 1, 2009, and June 30, 2012, 

is not required to retake and pass examinations applicable for initial licensure, certification, or 

registration. 

(15)This section does not apply to a business establishment registered, permitted, or licensed by 

the department to do business. 

(16)The board, or the department when there is no board, may adopt rules pursuant to ss. 

120.536(1) and 120.54 as necessary to implement this section. 

History.—s. 95, ch. 97-261; s. 63, ch. 2000-160; s. 31, ch. 2000-318; s. 3, ch. 2005-62; s. 2, ch. 2012-64. 

Note.—Former s. 455.711. 

456.O37Business establishments; requirements for active status licenses; delinquency; 

discipline; applicability.— 

(1 )A business establishment regulated by the Division of Medical Quality Assurance pursuant to this 

chapter may provide regulated services only if the business establishment has an active status license. 

A business establishment that provides regulated services without an active status license is in violation 



of this section and s. 456.072, and the board, or the department if there is no board, may impose 

discipline on the business establishment. 

(2)A business establishment must apply with a complete application, as defined by rule of the 

board, or the department if there is no board, to renew an active status license before the license 

expires. If a business establishment fails to renew before the license expires, the license becomes 

delinquent, except as otherwise provided in statute, in the license cycle following expiration. 

(3)A delinquent business establishment must apply with a complete application, as defined by rule 

of the board, or the department if there is no board, for active status within 6 months after becoming 

delinquent. Failure of a delinquent business establishment to renew the license within the 6 months 

after the expiration date of the license renders the license null without any further action by the board 

or the department. Any subsequent licensure shall be as a result of applying for and meeting all 

requirements imposed on a business establishment for new licensure. 

(4)The status or a change in status of a business establishment license does not alter in any way 

the right of the board, or of the department if there is no board, to impose discipline or to enforce 

discipline previously imposed on a business establishment for acts or omissions committed by the 

business establishment while holding a license, whether active or null. 

(5)This section applies to any business establishment registered, permitted, or licensed by the 

department to do business. Business establishments include, but are not limited to, dental 

laboratories, electrology facilities, massage establishments, pharmacies, and pain-management clinics 

required to be registered under s. 458.3265 or s. 459.0137. 

History.—s. 89, ch. 99-397; s. 64, ch. 2000-160; s. 27, ch. 2000-318; s. 102, ch. 2000-349; s. 1, ch. 2010-211. 

Note.—Former s. 455.712. 

456.O38Renewal and cancellation notices.— 

(1 )At least 90 days before the end of a licensure cycle, the department shall: 

(a)Forward a licensure renewal notification to an active or inactive status licensee at the 

licensee's last known address of record with the department. 

(b)Forward a notice of pending cancellation of licensure to a delinquent licensee at the licensee's 

last known address of record with the department. 

(2)Each licensure renewal notification and each notice of pending cancellation of licensure must 

state conspicuously that a licensee who remains on inactive status for more than two consecutive 

biennial licensure cycles and who wishes to reactivate the license may be required to demonstrate the 

competency to resume active practice by sitting for a special purpose examination or by completing 

other reactivation requirements, as defined by rule of the board or the department if there is no 

board. 

History.—s. 96, ch. 97-261; s. 65, ch. 2000-160; s. 33, ch. 2000-318. 

Note.—Former s. 455.714. 





maintenance organization, prepaid health clinic, ambulatory surgical center, or nursing home taken in 

lieu of or in settlement of a pending disciplinary case related to competence or character. If the 

applicant indicates that the disciplinary action is under appeal and submits a copy of the document 

initiating an appeal of the disciplinary action, the department must state that the disciplinary action is 

under appeal if the disciplinary action is reported in the applicant's profile. 

9.Relevant professional qualifications as defined by the applicable board. 

(b)In addition to the information required under paragraph (a), each applicant who seeks licensure 

under chapter 458, chapter 459, or chapter 461, and who has practiced previously in this state or in 

another jurisdiction or a foreign country must provide the information required of licensees under 

those chapters pursuant to s. 456.049. An applicant for licensure under chapter 460 who has practiced 

previously in this state or in another jurisdiction or a foreign country must provide the same 

information as is required of licensees under chapter 458, pursuant to s. 456.049. 

(2)Before the issuance of the licensure renewal notice required by s. 456.038, the Department of 

Health shall send a notice to each person licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 460, or 

chapter 461, at the licensee's last known address of record with the department, regarding the 

requirements for information to be submitted by those practitioners pursuant to this section in 

conjunction with the renewal of such license and under procedures adopted by the department. 

(3)Each person who has submitted information pursuant to subsection (1) must update that 

information in writing by notifying the Department of Health within 45 days after the occurrence of an 

event or the attainment of a status that is required to be reported by subsection (1). Failure to comply 

with the requirements of this subsection to update and submit information constitutes a ground for 

disciplinary action under each respective licensing chapter and s. 456.072(1 )(k). For failure to comply 

with the requirements of this subsection to update and submit information, the department or board, 

as appropriate, may: 

(a)Refuse to issue a license to any person applying for initial licensure who fails to submit and 

update the required information. 

(b)Issue a citation to any licensee who fails to submit and update the required information and may 

fine the licensee up to $50 for each day that the licensee is not in compliance with this subsection. The 

citation must clearly state that the licensee may choose, in lieu of accepting the citation, to follow the 

procedure under s. 456.073. If the licensee disputes the matter in the citation, the procedures set 

forth in s. 456.073 must be followed. However, if the licensee does not dispute the matter in the 

citation with the department within 30 days after the citation is served, the citation becomes a final 

order and constitutes discipline. Service of a citation may be made by personal service or certified 

mail, restricted delivery, to the subject at the licensee's last known address. 

(4)(a)An applicant for initial licensure must submit a set of fingerprints to the Department of 

Health in accordancewith s. 458.311,s. 458.3115, s. 458.3124, s. 458.313, s. 459.0055, s.460.406, or 

s. 461 .006. 





3.The address at which the applicant will primarily conduct his or her practice. 

4.Any certification or designation that the applicant has received from a specialty or certification 

board that is recognized or approved by the regulatory board or department to which the applicant is 

applying. 

5.The year that the applicant received initial certification and began practicing the profession in 

any jurisdiction and the year that the applicant received initial certification in this state. 

6.Any appointment which the applicant currently holds to the faculty of a school related to the 

profession and an indication as to whether the applicant has had the responsibility for graduate 

education within the most recent 10 years. 

7.A description of any criminal offense of which the applicant has been found guilty, regardless of 

whether adjudication of guilt was withheld, or to which the applicant has pled guilty or nob 

contendere. A criminal offense committed in another jurisdiction which would have been a felony or 

misdemeanor if committed in this state must be reported. If the applicant indicates that a criminal 

offense is under appeal and submits a copy of the notice for appeal of that criminal offense, the 

department must state that the criminal offense is under appeal if the criminal offense is reported in 

the applicant's profile. If the applicant indicates to the department that a criminal offense is under 

appeal, the applicant must, within 1 5 days after the disposition of the appeal, submit to the 

department a copy of the final written order of disposition. 

8.A description of any final disciplinary action taken within the previous 10 years against the 

applicant by a licensing or regulatory body in any jurisdiction, by a specialty board that is recognized 

by the board or department, or by a licensed hospital, health maintenance organization, prepaid 

health clinic, ambulatory surgical center, or nursing home. Disciplinary action includes resignation from 

or nonrenewal of staff membership or the restriction of privileges at a licensed hospital, health 

maintenance organization, prepaid health clinic, ambulatory surgical center, or nursing home taken in 

lieu of or in settlement of a pending disciplinary case related to competence or character. If the 

applicant indicates that the disciplinary action is under appeal and submits a copy of the document 

initiating an appeal of the disciplinary action, the department must state that the disciplinary action is 

under appeal if the disciplinary action is reported in the applicant's profile. 

(b)ln addition to the information required under paragraph (a), each applicant for initial 

certification or certification renewal must provide the information required of licensees pursuant to s. 

456.049. 

(2)The Department of Health shall send a notice to each person certified under s. 464.012 at the 

certificateholder's last known address of record regarding the requirements for information to be 

submitted by advanced registered nurse practitioners pursuant to this section in conjunction with the 

renewal of such certificate. 

(3)Each person certified under s. 464.012 who has submitted information pursuant to subsection (1) 

must update that information in writing by notifying the Department of Health within 45 days after the 



or a to by 

to the of to and 

for and to 

the of to the department or 

to to any person to submit 

a to submit the 

and the to the in 

must state 

in to the the 

the in the the in s. 456.073 must be followed. However, 

if the certificateholder does not dispute the matter in the citation with the department within 30 days 

after the citation is served, the citation becomes a final order and constitutes discipline. Service of a 

citation may be made by personal service or certified mail, restricted delivery, to the subject at the 

certificateholder's last known address. 

(4)(a)An applicant for initial certification under s. 464.012 must submit a set of fingerprints to the 

Department of Health on a form and under procedures specified by the department, along with 

payment in an amount equal to the costs incurred by the Department of Health for a national criminal 

history check of the applicant. 

(b)An applicant for renewed certification who has not previously submitted a set of fingerprints to 

the Department of Health for purposes of certification must submit a set of fingerprints to the 

department as a condition of the initial renewal of his or her certificate after the effective date of this 

section. The applicant must submit the fingerprints on a form and under procedures specified by the 

department, along with payment in an amount equal to the costs incurred by the Department of Health 

for a national criminal history check. For subsequent renewals, the applicant for renewed certification 

must only submit information necessary to conduct a statewide criminal history check, along with 

payment in an amount equal to the costs incurred by the Department of Health for a statewide 

criminal history check. 

(c)1 .The Department of Health shall submit the fingerprints provided by an applicant for initial 

certification to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement for a statewide criminal history check, and 

the Florida Department of Law Enforcement shall forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation for a national criminal history check of the applicant. 

2.The department shall submit the fingerprints provided by an applicant for the initial renewal of 

certification to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement for a statewide criminal history check, and 

the Florida Department of Law Enforcement shall forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation for a national criminal history check for the initial renewal of the applicant's certificate 



after the effective date of this section. 

3.For any subsequent renewal of the applicant's certificate, the department shall submit the 

required information for a statewide criminal history check of the applicant to the Florida Department 

of Law Enforcement. 

(d)Any applicant for initial certification or renewal of certification as an advanced registered nurse 

practitioner who submits to the Department of Health a set of fingerprints and information required for 

the criminal history check required under this section shall not be required to provide a subsequent set 

of fingerprints or other duplicate information required for a criminal history check to the Agency for 

Health Care Administration, the Department of Juvenile Justice, or the Department of Children and 

Family Services for employment or licensure with such agency or department, if the applicant has 

undergone a criminal history check as a condition of initial certification or renewal of certification as 

an advanced registered nurse practitioner with the Department of Health, notwithstanding any other 

provision of law to the contrary. In lieu of such duplicate submission, the Agency for Health Care 

Administration, the Department of Juvenile Justice, and the Department of Children and Family 

Services shall obtain criminal history information for employment or licensure of persons certified 

under s. 464.012 by such agency or department from the Department of Health's health care 

practitioner credentialing system. 

(5)Each person who is required to submit information pursuant to this section may submit 

additional information to the Department of Health. Such information may include, but is not limited 

to: 

(a)Information regarding publications in peer-reviewed professional literature within the previous 

10 years. 

(b)Information regarding professional or community service activities or awards. 

(c)Languages, other than English, used by the applicant to communicate with patients or clients 

and identification of any translating service that may be available at the place where the applicant 

primarily conducts his or her practice. 

(d)An indication of whether the person participates in the Medicaid program. 

History.—s. 152, ch. 2000-318. 

456.O392Prescription labeling.— 

(1 )A prescription written by a practitioner who is authorized under the laws of this state to write 

prescriptions for drugs that are not listed as controlled substances in chapter 893 but who is not 

eligible for a federal Drug Enforcement Administration number shall include that practitioner's name 

and professional license number. The pharmacist or dispensing practitioner must include the 

practitioner's name on the container of the drug that is dispensed. A pharmacist shall be permitted, 

upon verification by the prescriber, to document any information required by this section. 

(2)A prescription for a drug that is not listed as a controlled substance in chapter 893 which is 



written by an advanced registered nurse practitioner certified under s. 464.012 is presumed, subject to 

rebuttal, to be valid and within the parameters of the prescriptive authority delegated by a 

practitioner licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, or chapter 466. 

(3)A prescription for a drug that is not listed as a controlled substance in chapter 893 which is 

written by a physician assistant licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459 is presumed, subject to 

rebuttal, to be valid and within the parameters of the prescriptive authority delegated by the physician 

assistant's supervising physician. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2004-8. 

456.041 Practitioner profile; creation.— 

(1)(a)The Department of Health shall compile the information submitted pursuant to s. 456.039 

into a practitioner profile of the applicant submitting the information, except that the Department of 

Health shall develop a format to compile uniformly any information submitted under s. 456.039(4)(b). 

Beginning July 1, 2001, the Department of Health may compile the information submitted pursuant to 

s. 456.0391 into a practitioner profile of the applicant submitting the information. The protocol 

submitted pursuant to s. 464.012(3) must be included in the practitioner profile of the advanced 

registered nurse practitioner. 

(b)Beginning July 1, 2005, the department shall verify the information submitted by the applicant 

under s. 456.039 concerning disciplinary history and medical malpractice claims at the time of initial 

licensure and license renewal using the National Practitioner Data Bank. The physician profiles shall 

reflect the disciplinary action and medical malpractice claims as reported by the National Practitioner 

Data Bank, and shall include information relating to liability and disciplinary actions obtained as a 

result of a search of the National Practitioner Data Bank. 

(c)Within 30 calendar days after receiving an update of information required for the practitioner's 

profile, the department shall update the practitioner's profile in accordance with the requirements of 

subsection (8). 

(2)On the profile published under subsection (1), the department shall indicate if the information 

provided under s. 456.039(1 )(a)7. or s. 456.0391 (1 )(a)7. is or is not corroborated by a criminal history 

check conducted according to this subsection. The department, or the board having regulatory 

authority over the practitioner acting on behalf of the department, shall investigate any information 

received by the department or the board. 

(3)The Department of Health shall include in each practitioner's practitioner profile that criminal 

information that directly relates to the practitioner's ability to competently practice his or her 

profession. The department must include in each practitioner's practitioner profile the following 

statement: "The criminal history information, if any exists, may be incomplete; federal criminal history 

information is not available to the public." The department shall provide in each practitioner profile, 

for every final disciplinary action taken against the practitioner, an easy-to-read narrative description 



that explains the administrative complaint filed against the practitioner and the final disciplinary 

action imposed on the practitioner. The department shall include a hyperlink to each final order listed 

in its website report of dispositions of recent disciplinary actions taken against practitioners. 

(4)The Department of Health shall include, with respect to a practitioner licensed under chapter 

458 or chapter 459, a statement of how the practitioner has elected to comply with the financial 

responsibility requirements of s. 458.320 or s. 459.0085. The department shall include, with respect to 

practitioners subject to s. 456.048, a statement of how the practitioner has elected to comply with the 

financial responsibility requirements of that section. The department shall include, with respect to 

practitioners licensed under chapter 461, information relating to liability actions which has been 

reported under s. 456.049 or s. 627.912 within the previous 10 years for any paid claim that exceeds 

$5,000. The department shall include, with respect to practitioners licensed under chapter 458 or 

chapter 459, information relating to liability actions which has been reported under ss. 456.049 and 

627.912 within the previous 10 years for any paid claim that exceeds $100,000. Such claims information 

shall be reported in the context of comparing an individual practitioner's claims to the experience of 

other practitioners within the same specialty, or profession if the practitioner is not a specialist. The 

department must provide a hyperlink in such practitioner's profile to all such comparison reports. If 

information relating to a liability action is included in a practitioner's practitioner profile, the profile 

must also include the following statement: "Settlement of a claim may occur for a variety of reasons 

that do not necessarily reflect negatively on the professional competence or conduct of the 

practitioner. A payment in settlement of a medical malpractice action or claim should not be construed 

as creating a presumption that medical malpractice has occurred." 

(5)The Department of Health shall include the date of a hospital or ambulatory surgical center 

disciplinary action taken by a licensed hospital or an ambulatory surgical center, in accordance with 

the requirements of s. 395.0193, in the practitioner profile. The department shall state whether the 

action related to professional competence and whether it related to the delivery of services to a 

patient. 

(6)The Department of Health shall provide in each practitioner profile for every physician or 

advanced registered nurse practitioner terminated for cause from participating in the Medicaid 

program, pursuant to s. 409.913, or sanctioned by the Medicaid program a statement that the 

practitioner has been terminated from participating in the Florida Medicaid program or sanctioned by 

the Medicaid program. 

(7)The Department of Health may include in the practitioner's practitioner profile any other 

information that is a public record of any governmental entity and that relates to a practitioner's 

ability to competently practice his or her profession. 

(8)Upon the completion of a practitioner profile under this section, the Department of Health shall 

furnish the practitioner who is the subject of the profile a copy of it for review and verification. The 

practitioner has a period of 30 days in which to review and verify the contents of the profile and to 



correct any factual inaccuracies in it. The Department of Health shall make the profile available to the 

public at the end of the 30-day period regardless of whether the practitioner has provided verification 

of the profile content. A practitioner shall be subject to a fine of up to $100 per day for failure to 

verify the profile contents and to correct any factual errors in his or her profile within the 30-day 

period. The department shall make the profiles available to the public through the World Wide Web 

and other commonly used means of distribution. The department must include the following 

statement, in boldface type, in each profile that has not been reviewed by the practitioner to which it 

applies: "The practitioner has not verified the information contained in this profile." 

(9)The Department of Health must provide in each profile an easy-to-read explanation of any 

disciplinary action taken and the reason the sanction or sanctions were imposed. 

(10)The Department of Health may provide one link in each profile to a practitioner's professional 

website if the practitioner requests that such a link be included in his or her profile. 

(11 )Making a practitioner profile available to the public under this section does not constitute 

agency action for which a hearing under s. 120.57 may be sought. 

History.—s. 128, ch. 97-237; s. 4, ch. 97-273; s. 35, ch. 98-166; s. 77, ch. 99-397; s. 111, ch. 2000-153; s. 67, ch. 2000- 

160; ss. 22, 153, ch. 2000-318; s. 14, ch. 2003-416; s. 7, ch. 2005-62; s. 1, ch. 2005-266; s. 3, ch. 2006-251; s. 22, ch. 

2009-223; s. 103, ch. 201 0-5. 

Note.—Former s. 455.5651. 

456.O42Practitioner profiles; update.—A practitioner must submit updates of required 

information within 15 days after the final activity that renders such information a fact. The 

Department of Health shall update each practitioner's practitioner profile periodically. An updated 

profile is subject to the same requirements as an original profile. 

History.—s. 129, ch. 97-237; s. 5, ch. 97-273; s. 68, ch. 2000-160; s. 15, ch. 2003-41 6. 

Note.—Former s. 455.5652. 

456.O43Practitioner profiles; data storage.—Effective upon this act becoming a law, the 

Department of Health must develop or contract for a computer system to accommodate the new data 

collection and storage requirements under this act pending the development and operation of a 

computer system by the Department of Health for handling the collection, input, revision, and update 

of data submitted by physicians as a part of their initial licensure or renewal to be compiled into 

individual practitioner profiles. The Department of Health must incorporate any data required by this 

act into the computer system used in conjunction with the regulation of health care professions under 

its jurisdiction. The Department of Health is authorized to contract with and negotiate any interagency 

agreement necessary to develop and implement the practitioner profiles. The Department of Health 

shall have access to any information or record maintained by the Agency for Health Care 

Administration, including any information or record that is otherwise confidential and exempt from the 

provisions of chapter 119 and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution, so that the Department of 





require that all health care practitioners licensed under the respective board, and the Board of 

Medicine and the Board of Osteopathic Medicine shall, by rule, require that all anesthesiologist 

assistants licensed pursuant to s. 458.3475 or s. 459.023, and the Board of Nursing shall, by rule, 

require that advanced registered nurse practitioners certified under s. 464.012, and the department 

shall, by rule, require that midwives maintain medical malpractice insurance or provide proof of 

financial responsibility in an amount and in a manner determined by the board or department to be 

sufficient to cover claims arising out of the rendering of or failure to render professional care and 

services in this state. 

(2)The board or department may grant exemptions upon application by practitioners meeting any 

of the following criteria: 

(a)Any person licensed under chapter 457, s. 458.3475, s. 459.023, chapter 460, chapter 461, s. 

464.012, chapter 466, or chapter 467 who practices exclusively as an officer, employee, or agent of the 

Federal Government or of the state or its agencies or its subdivisions. For the purposes of this 

subsection, an agent of the state, its agencies, or its subdivisions is a person who is eligible for 

coverage under any self-insurance or insurance program authorized by the provisions of s. 768.28(16) or 

who is a volunteer under s. 110.501(1). 

(b)Any person whose license or certification has become inactive under chapter 457, s. 458.3475, 

s. 459.023, chapter 460, chapter 461, part I of chapter 464, chapter 466, or chapter 467 and who is not 

practicing in this state. Any person applying for reactivation of a license must show either that such 

licensee maintained tail insurance coverage which provided liability coverage for incidents that 

occurred on or after October 1, 1993, or the initial date of licensure in this state, whichever is later, 

and incidents that occurred before the date on which the license became inactive; or such licensee 

must submit an affidavit stating that such licensee has no unsatisfied medical malpractice judgments or 

settlements at the time of application for reactivation. 

(c)Any person holding a limited license pursuant to s. 456.015, and practicing under the scope of 

such limited license. 

(d)Any person licensed or certified under chapter 457, s. 458.3475, s. 459.023, chapter 460, 

chapter 461, s. 464.012, chapter 466, or chapter 467 who practices only in conjunction with his or her 

teaching duties at an accredited school or in its main teaching hospitals. Such person may engage in 

the practice of medicine to the extent that such practice is incidental to and a necessary part of duties 

in connection with the teaching position in the school. 

(e)Any person holding an active license or certification under chapter 457, s. 458.3475, s. 459.023, 

chapter 460, chapter 461, s. 464.012, chapter 466, or chapter 467 who is not practicing in this state. If 

such person initiates or resumes practice in this state, he or she must notify the department of such 

activity. 

(f)Any person who can demonstrate to the board or department that he or she has no malpractice 

exposure in the state. 



(3)Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, the financial responsibility requirements of ss. 

458.320 and 459.0085 shall continue to apply to practitioners licensed under those chapters, except for 

anesthesiologist assistants licensed pursuant to s. 458.3475 or s. 459.023 who must meet the 

requirements of this section. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 93-41; S. 193, ch. 97-103; s. 90, ch. 97-261; s. 266, ch. 98-166; s. 88, ch. 99-397; S. 73, ch. 2000- 

160; s. 116, ch. 2000-318; S. 73, ch. 2004-5; S. 1, ch. 2004-303. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2456; s. 455.694. 

456.O49Health care practitioners; reports on professional liability claims and actions.—Any 

practitioner of medicine licensed pursuant to the provisions of chapter 458, practitioner of osteopathic 

medicine licensed pursuant to the provisions of chapter 459, podiatric physician licensed pursuant to 

the provisions of chapter 461, or dentist licensed pursuant to the provisions of chapter 466 shall report 

to the Office of Insurance Regulation any claim or action for damages for personal injury alleged to 

have been caused by error, omission, or negligence in the performance of such licensee's professional 

services or based on a claimed performance of professional services without consent pursuant to s. 

627.912. 

History.—s. 13, ch. 88-1; s. 7, ch. 91-140; s. 309, ch. 96-406; s. 91, ch. 97-261; s. 193, ch. 98-166; s. 74, ch. 2000-160; 

s. 16, ch. 2003-416. 

Note.—Former s. 455.247; s. 455.697. 

456.O5lReports of professional liability actions; bankruptcies; Department of Health's 

responsibility to provide.— 

(1 )The report of a claim or action for damages for personal injury which is required to be provided 

to the Department of Health under s. 456.049 or s. 627.912 is public information except for the name 

of the claimant or injured person, which remains confidential as provided in s. 627.912(2)(e). The 

Department of Health shall, upon request, make such report available to any person. The department 

shall make such report available as a part of the practitioner's profile within 30 calendar days after 

receipt. 

(2)Any information in the possession of the Department of Health which relates to a bankruptcy 

proceeding by a practitioner of medicine licensed under chapter 458, a practitioner of osteopathic 

medicine licensed under chapter 459, a podiatric physician licensed under chapter 461, or a dentist 

licensed under chapter 466 is public information. The Department of Health shall, upon request, make 

such information available to any person. The department shall make such report available as a part of 

the practitioner's profile within 30 calendar days after receipt. 

History.—s. 146, ch. 97-237; s. 22, ch. 97-273; ss. 38, 194, ch. 98-166; s. 75, ch. 2000-160; s. 17, ch. 2003-41 6; s. 74, 

ch. 2004-5. 

Note.—Former s. 455.698. 



456.O52Disclosure of financial interest by production.— 

(1 )A health care provider shall not refer a patient to an entity in which such provider is an investor 

unless, prior to the referral, the provider furnishes the patient with a written disclosure form, 

informing the patient of: 

(a)The existence of the investment interest. 

(b)The name and address of each applicable entity in which the referring health care provider is an 

investor. 

(c)The patient's right to obtain the items or services for which the patient has been referred at the 

location or from the provider or supplier of the patient's choice, including the entity in which the 

referring provider is an investor. 

(d)The names and addresses of at least two alternative sources of such items or services available 

to the patient. 

(2)The physician or health care provider shall post a copy of the disclosure forms in a conspicuous 

public place in his or her office. 

(3)A violation of this section shall constitute a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. In addition to any other penalties or remedies provided, a 

violation of this section shall be grounds for disciplinary action by the respective board. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 86-31; s. 84, ch. 91-224; s. 13, ch. 92-178; s. 92, ch. 97-261; s. 76, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.25; s. 455.701. 

456.O53Financial arrangements between referring health care providers and providers of 

health care services.— 

(1)SHORT TITLE.—This section may be cited as the "Patient Self-Referral Act of 1992." 

(2)LEGISLATIVE INTENT.—It is recognized by the Legislature that the referral of a patient by a 

health care provider to a provider of health care services in which the referring health care provider 

has an investment interest represents a potential conflict of interest. The Legislature finds these 

referral practices may limit or eliminate competitive alternatives in the health care services market, 

may result in overutilization of health care services, may increase costs to the health care system, and 

may adversely affect the quality of health care. The Legislature also recognizes, however, that it may 

be appropriate for providers to own entities providing health care services, and to refer patients to 

such entities, as long as certain safeguards are present in the arrangement. It is the intent of the 

Legislature to provide guidance to health care providers regarding prohibited patient referrals between 

health care providers and entities providing health care services and to protect the people of Florida 

from unnecessary and costly health care expenditures. 

(3)DEFINITIONS.—For the purpose of this section, the word, phrase, or term: 

(a)"Board" means any of the following boards relating to the respective professions: the Board of 

Medicine as created in s. 458.307; the Board of Osteopathic Medicine as created in s. 459.004; the 



Board of Chiropractic Medicine as created in s. 460.404; the Board of Podiatric Medicine as created in 

s. 461 .004; the Board of Optometry as created in s. 463.003; the Board of Pharmacy as created in s. 

465.004; and the Board of Dentistry as created in s. 466.004. 

(b)"Comprehensive rehabilitation services" means services that are provided by health care 

professionals licensed under part I or part III of chapter 468 or chapter 486 to provide speech, 

occupational, or physical therapy services on an outpatient or ambulatory basis. 

(c)"Designated health services" means, for purposes of this section, clinical laboratory services, 

physical therapy services, comprehensive rehabilitative services, diagnostic-imaging services, and 

radiation therapy services. 

(d)"Diagnostic imaging services" means magnetic resonance imaging, nuclear medicine, 

angiography, arteriography, computed tomography, positron emission tomography, digital vascular 

imaging, bronchography, lymphangiography, splenography, ultrasound, EEG, EKG, nerve conduction 

studies, and evoked potentials. 

(e)"Direct supervision" means supervision by a physician who is present in the office suite and 

immediately available to provide assistance and direction throughout the time services are being 

performed. 

(f)"Entity" means any individual, partnership, firm, corporation, or other business entity. 

(g)"Fair market value" means value in arms length transactions, consistent with the general 

market value, and, with respect to rentals or leases, the value of rental property for general 

commercial purposes, not taking into account its intended use, and, in the case of a lease of space, not 

adjusted to reflect the additional value the prospective lessee or lessor would attribute to the 

proximity or convenience to the lessor where the lessor is a potential source of patient referrals to the 

lessee. 

(h)"Group practice" means a group of two or more health care providers legally organized as a 

partnership, professional corporation, or similar association: 

1 .In which each health care provider who is a member of the group provides substantially the full 

range of services which the health care provider routinely provides, including medical care, 

consultation, diagnosis, or treatment, through the joint use of shared office space, facilities, 

equipment, and personnel; 

2.For which substantially all of the services of the health care providers who are members of the 

group are provided through the group and are billed in the name of the group and amounts so received 

are treated as receipts of the group; and 

3.In which the overhead expenses of and the income from the practice are distributed in 

accordance with methods previously determined by members of the group. 

(i)"Health care provider" means any physician licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 

460, or chapter 461, or any health care provider licensed under chapter 463 or chapter 466. 

(j)"Immediate family member" means a health care provider's spouse, child, child's spouse, 





3.The following orders, recommendations, or plans of care shall not constitute a referral by a 

health care provider: 

a.By a radiologist for diagnostic-imaging services. 

b.By a physician specializing in the provision of radiation therapy services for such services. 

c.By a medical oncologist for drugs and solutions to be prepared and administered intravenously to 

such oncologist's patient, as well as for the supplies and equipment used in connection therewith to 

treat such patient for cancer and the complications thereof. 

d.By a cardiologist for cardiac catheterization services. 

e.By a pathologist for diagnostic clinical laboratory tests and pathological examination services, if 

furnished by or under the supervision of such pathologist pursuant to a consultation requested by 

another physician. 

f.By a health care provider who is the sole provider or member of a group practice for designated 

health services or other health care items or services that are prescribed or provided solely for such 

referring health care provider's or group practice's own patients, and that are provided or performed 

by or under the direct supervision of such referring health care provider or group practice; provided, 

however, that effective July 1, 1999, a physician licensed pursuant to chapter 458, chapter 459, 

chapter 460, or chapter 461 may refer a patient to a sole provider or group practice for diagnostic 

imaging services, excluding radiation therapy services, for which the sole provider or group practice 

billed both the technical and the professional fee for or on behalf of the patient, if the referring 

physician has no investment interest in the practice. The diagnostic imaging service referred to a group 

practice or sole provider must be a diagnostic imaging service normally provided within the scope of 

practice to the patients of the group practice or sole provider. The group practice or sole provider may 

accept no more than 15 percent of their patients receiving diagnostic imaging services from outside 

referrals, excluding radiation therapy services. 

g.By a health care provider for services provided by an ambulatory surgical center licensed under 

chapter 395. 

h.By a urologist for lithotripsy services. 

i.By a dentist for dental services performed by an employee of or health care provider who is an 

independent contractor with the dentist or group practice of which the dentist is a member. 

j.By a physician for infusion therapy services to a patient of that physician or a member of that 

physician's group practice. 

k.By a nephrologist for renal dialysis services and supplies, except laboratory services. 

l.By a health care provider whose principal professional practice consists of treating patients in 

their private residences for services to be rendered in such private residences, except for services 

rendered by a home health agency licensed under chapter 400. For purposes of this sub-subparagraph, 

the term "private residences" includes patients' private homes, independent living centers, and 

assisted living facilities, but does not include skilled nursing facilities. 



m.By a health care provider for sleep-related testing. 

(p)"Present in the office suite" means that the physician is actually physically present; provided, 

however, that the health care provider is considered physically present during brief unexpected 

absences as well as during routine absences of a short duration if the absences occur during time 

periods in which the health care provider is otherwise scheduled and ordinarily expected to be present 

and the absences do not conflict with any other requirement in the Medicare program for a particular 

level of health care provider supervision. 

(q)"Rural area" means a county with a population density of no greater than 100 persons per 

square mile, as defined by the United States Census. 

(r)"Sole provider" means one health care provider licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, 

chapter 460, or chapter 461, who maintains a separate medical office and a medical practice separate 

from any other health care provider and who bills for his or her services separately from the services 

provided by any other health care provider. A sole provider shall not share overhead expenses or 

professional income with any other person or group practice. 

(4)REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCEPTING OUTSIDE REFERRALS FOR DIAGNOSTIC IMAGING.— 

(a)A group practice or sole provider accepting outside referrals for diagnostic imaging services is 

required to comply with the following conditions: 

1 .Diagnostic imaging services must be provided exclusively by a group practice physician or by a 

full-time or part-time employee of the group practice or of the sole provider's practice. 

2.All equity in the group practice or sole provider's practice accepting outside referrals for 

diagnostic imaging must be held by the physicians comprising the group practice or the sole provider's 

practice, each of whom must provide at least 75 percent of his or her professional services to the 

group. Alternatively, the group must be incorporated under chapter 617 and must be exempt under the 

provisions of s. 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and be part of a foundation in existence prior to 

January 1, 1999, that is created for the purpose of patient care, medical education, and research. 

3.A group practice or sole provider may not enter into, extend or renew any contract with a 

practice management company that provides any financial incentives, directly or indirectly, based on 

an increase in outside referrals for diagnostic imaging services from any group or sole provider 

managed by the same practice management company. 

4.The group practice or sole provider accepting outside referrals for diagnostic imaging services 

must bill for both the professional and technical component of the service on behalf of the patient, 

and no portion of the payment, or any type of consideration, either directly or indirectly, may be 

shared with the referring physician. 

5.Group practices or sole providers that have a Medicaid provider agreement with the Agency for 

Health Care Administration must furnish diagnostic imaging services to their Medicaid patients and may 

not refer a Medicaid recipient to a hospital for outpatient diagnostic imaging services unless the 

physician furnishes the hospital with documentation demonstrating the medical necessity for such a 



referral. If necessary, the Agency for Health Care Administration may apply for a federal waiver to 

implement this subparagraph. 

6.All group practices and sole providers accepting outside referrals for diagnostic imaging shall 

report annually to the Agency for Health Care Administration providing the number of outside referrals 

accepted for diagnostic imaging services and the total number of all patients receiving diagnostic 

imaging services. 

(b)If a group practice or sole provider accepts an outside referral for diagnostic imaging services in 

violation of this subsection or if a group practice or sole provider accepts outside referrals for 

diagnostic imaging services in excess of the percentage limitation established in subparagraph (a)2., 

the group practice or the sole provider shall be subject to the penalties in subsection (5). 

(c)Each managing physician member of a group practice and each sole provider who accepts 

outside referrals for diagnostic imaging services shall submit an annual attestation signed under oath to 

the Agency for Health Care Administration which shall include the annual report required under 

subparagraph (a)6. and which shall further confirm that each group practice or sole provider is in 

compliance with the percentage limitations for accepting outside referrals and the requirements for 

accepting outside referrals listed in paragraph (a). The agency may verify the report submitted by 

group practices and sole providers. 

(5)PROHIBITED REFERRALS AND CLAIMS FOR PAYMENT.—Except as provided in this section: 

(a)A health care provider may not refer a patient for the provision of designated health services to 

an entity in which the health care provider is an investor or has an investment interest. 

(b)A health care provider may not refer a patient for the provision of any other health care item or 

service to an entity in which the health care provider is an investor unless: 

1 .The provider's investment interest is in registered securities purchased on a national exchange or 

over-the-counter market and issued by a publicly held corporation: 

a.Whose shares are traded on a national exchange or on the over-the-counter market; and 

b.Whose total assets at the end of the corporation's most recent fiscal quarter exceeded $50 

million; or 

2.With respect to an entity other than a publicly held corporation described in subparagraph 1., 

and a referring provider's investment interest in such entity, each of the following requirements are 

met: 

a.No more than 50 percent of the value of the investment interests are held by investors who are 

in a position to make referrals to the entity. 

b.The terms under which an investment interest is offered to an investor who is in a position to 

make referrals to the entity are no different from the terms offered to investors who are not in a 

position to make such referrals. 

c.The terms under which an investment interest is offered to an investor who is in a position to 

make referrals to the entity are not related to the previous or expected volume of referrals from that 



investor to the entity. 

d.There is no requirement that an investor make referrals or be in a position to make referrals to 

the entity as a condition for becoming or remaining an investor. 

3.With respect to either such entity or publicly held corporation: 

a.The entity or corporation does not loan funds to or guarantee a loan for an investor who is in a 

position to make referrals to the entity or corporation if the investor uses any part of such loan to 

obtain the investment interest. 

b.The amount distributed to an investor representing a return on the investment interest is 

directly proportional to the amount of the capital investment, including the fair market value of any 

preoperational services rendered, invested in the entity or corporation by that investor. 

4.Each board and, in the case of hospitals, the Agency for Health Care Administration, shall 

encourage the use by licensees of the declaratory statement procedure to determine the applicability 

of this section or any rule adopted pursuant to this section as it applies solely to the licensee. Boards 

shall submit to the Agency for Health Care Administration the name of any entity in which a provider 

investment interest has been approved pursuant to this section, and the Agency for Health Care 

Administration shall adopt rules providing for periodic quality assurance and utilization review of such 

entities. 

(c)No claim for payment may be presented by an entity to any individual, third-party payor, or 

other entity for a service furnished pursuant to a referral prohibited under this section. 

(d)If an entity collects any amount that was billed in violation of this section, the entity shall 

refund such amount on a timely basis to the payor or individual, whichever is applicable. 

(e)Any person that presents or causes to be presented a bill or a claim for service that such person 

knows or should know is for a service for which payment may not be made under paragraph (c), or for 

which a refund has not been made under paragraph (d), shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more 

than $15,000 for each such service to be imposed and collected by the appropriate board. 

(f)Any health care provider or other entity that enters into an arrangement or scheme, such as a 

cross-referral arrangement, which the physician or entity knows or should know has a principal purpose 

of assuring referrals by the physician to a particular entity which, if the physician directly made 

referrals to such entity, would be in violation of this section, shall be subject to a civil penalty of not 

more than $100,000 for each such circumvention arrangement or scheme to be imposed and collected 

by the appropriate board. 

(g)A violation of this section by a health care provider shall constitute grounds for disciplinary 

action to be taken by the applicable board pursuant to s. 458.331 (2), s. 459.01 5(2), s. 460.41 3(2), s. 

461 .013(2), s. 463.016(2), or s. 466.028(2). Any hospital licensed under chapter 395 found in violation 

of this section shall be subject to the rules adopted by the Agency for Health Care Administration 

pursuant to s. 395.01 85(2). 

(h)Any hospital licensed under chapter 395 that discriminates against or otherwise penalizes a 





Note.—Former s. 455.244; s. 455.684. 

456.O56Treatment of Medicare beneficiaries; refusal, emergencies, consulting physicians.— 

(1)Effective as of January 1, 1993, as used in this section, the term: 

(a)"Physician" means a physician licensed under chapter 458, an osteopathic physician licensed 

under chapter 459, a chiropractic physician licensed under chapter 460, a podiatric physician licensed 

under chapter 461, or an optometrist licensed under chapter 463. 

(b)"Beneficiary" means a beneficiary of health insurance under Title XVIII of the federal Social 

Security Act. 

(c)"Consulting physician" means any physician to whom a primary physician refers a Medicare 

beneficiary for treatment. 

(2)A physician may refuse to treat a beneficiary. However, nothing contained in this section shall 

be construed to limit a physician's obligation under state or federal law to treat a patient for an 

emergency medical condition, regardless of the patient's ability to pay. 

(3)If treatment is provided to a beneficiary for an emergency medical condition as defined in 's. 

395.0142(2)(c), the physician must accept Medicare assignment provided that the requirement to 

accept Medicare assignment for an emergency medical condition shall not apply to treatment rendered 

after the patient is stabilized, or the treatment is unrelated to the original emergency medical 

condition. For the purpose of this subsection "stabilized" is defined to mean with respect to an 

emergency medical condition, that no material deterioration of the condition is likely within 

reasonable medical probability. 

(4)If treatment provided to a beneficiary is not for such emergency medical condition, and the 

primary physician accepts assignment, all consulting physicians must accept assignment unless the 

patient agrees in writing, before receiving the treatment, that the physician need not accept 

assignment. 

(5)Any attempt by a primary physician or a consulting physician to collect from a Medicare 

beneficiary any amount of charges for medical services in excess of those authorized under this 

section, other than the unmet deductible and the 20 percent of charges that Medicare does not pay, 

shall be deemed null, void, and of no merit. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 92-118; s. 160, ch. 92-149; s. 89, ch. 97-261; ss. 192, 265, ch. 98-166; s. 78, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—"Emergency medical condition" is no longer defined in s. 395.0142, which was amended and 

transferred to s. 395.1041 by s. 24, ch. 92-289. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2455; s. 455.691. 

456.O57Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 

furnished.— 

(1 )As used in this section, the term "records owner" means any health care practitioner who 

generates a medical record after making a physical or mental examination of, or administering 



treatment or dispensing legend drugs to, any person; any health care practitioner to whom records are 

transferred by a previous records owner; or any health care practitioner's employer, including, but not 

limited to, group practices and staff-model health maintenance organizations, provided the 

employment contract or agreement between the employer and the health care practitioner designates 

the employer as the records owner. 

(2)As used in this section, the terms "records owner," "health care practitioner," and "health care 

practitioner's employer" do not include any of the following persons or entities; furthermore, the 

following persons or entities are not authorized to acquire or own medical records, but are authorized 

under the confidentiality and disclosure requirements of this section to maintain those documents 

required by the part or chapter under which they are licensed or regulated: 

(a)Certified nursing assistants regulated under part II of chapter 464. 

(b)Pharmacists and pharmacies licensed under chapter 465. 

(c)Dental hygienists licensed under s. 466.023. 

(d)Nursing home administrators licensed under part II of chapter 468. 

(e)Respiratory therapists regulated under part V of chapter 468. 

(f)Athletic trainers licensed under part XIII of chapter 468. 

(g)Electrologists licensed under chapter 478. 

(h)Clinical laboratory personnel licensed under part III of chapter 483. 

(i)Medical physicists licensed under part IV of chapter 483. 

(j)Opticians and optical establishments licensed or permitted under part I of chapter 484. 

(k)Persons or entities practicing under s. 627.736(7). 

(3)As used in this section, the term "records custodian" means any person or entity that: 

(a)Maintains documents that are authorized in subsection (2); or 

(b)Obtains medical records from a records owner. 

(4)Any health care practitioner's employer who is a records owner and any records custodian shall 

maintain records or documents as provided under the confidentiality and disclosure requirements of 

this section. 

(5)This section does not apply to facilities licensed under chapter 395. 

(6)Any health care practitioner licensed by the department or a board within the department who 

makes a physical or mental examination of, or administers treatment or dispenses legend drugs to, any 

person shall, upon request of such person or the person's legal representative, furnish, in a timely 

manner, without delays for legal review, copies of all reports and records relating to such examination 

or treatment, including X rays and insurance information. However, when a patient's psychiatric, 

chapter 490 psychological, or chapter 491 psychotherapeutic records are requested by the patient or 

the patient's legal representative, the health care practitioner may provide a report of examination 

and treatment in lieu of copies of records. Upon a patient's written request, complete copies of the 

patient's psychiatric records shall be provided directly to a subsequent treating psychiatrist. The 



furnishing of such report or copies shall not be conditioned upon payment of a fee for services 

rendered. 

(7)(a)Except as otherwise provided in this section and in s. 440.13(4)(c), such records may not be 

furnished to, and the medical condition of a patient may not be discussed with, any person other than 

the patient or the patient's legal representative or other health care practitioners and providers 

involved in the care or treatment of the patient, except upon written authorization of the patient. 

However, such records may be furnished without written authorization under the following 

circumstances: 

1 .10 any person, firm, or corporation that has procured or furnished such examination or 

treatment with the patient's consent. 

2.When compulsory physical examination is made pursuant to Rule 1 .360, Florida Rules of Civil 

Procedure, in which case copies of the medical records shall be furnished to both the defendant and 

the plaintiff. 

3.In any civil or criminal action, unless otherwise prohibited by law, upon the issuance of a 

subpoena from a court of competent jurisdiction and proper notice to the patient or the patient's legal 

representative by the party seeking such records. 

4.For statistical and scientific research, provided the information is abstracted in such a way as to 

protect the identity of the patient or provided written permission is received from the patient or the 

patient's legal representative. 

5.10 a regional poison control center for purposes of treating a poison episode under evaluation, 

case management of poison cases, or compliance with data collection and reporting requirements of s. 

395.1027 and the professional organization that certifies poison control centers in accordance with 

federal law. 

(b)Absent a specific written release or authorization permitting utilization of patient information 

for solicitation or marketing the sale of goods or services, any use of that information for those 

purposes is prohibited. 

(8)Except in a medical negligence action or administrative proceeding when a health care 

practitioner or provider is or reasonably expects to be named as a defendant, information disclosed to 

a health care practitioner by a patient in the course of the care and treatment of such patient is 

confidential and may be disclosed only to other health care practitioners and providers involved in the 

care or treatment of the patient, or if permitted by written authorization from the patient or 

compelled by subpoena at a deposition, evidentiary hearing, or trial for which proper notice has been 

given. 

(9)(a)1 .The department may obtain patient records pursuant to a subpoena without written 

authorization from the patient if the department and the probable cause panel of the appropriate 

board, if any, find reasonable cause to believe that a health care practitioner has excessively or 

inappropriately prescribed any controlled substance specified in chapter 893 in violation of this chapter 



or any professional practice act or that a health care practitioner has practiced his or her profession 

below that level of care, skill, and treatment required as defined by this chapter or any professional 

practice act and also find that appropriate, reasonable attempts were made to obtain a patient 

release. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the department need not attempt to obtain a patient release 

when investigating an offense involving the inappropriate prescribing, overprescribing, or diversion of 

controlled substances and the offense involves a pain-management clinic. The department may obtain 

patient records without patient authorization or subpoena from any pain-management clinic required 

to be licensed if the department has probable cause to believe that a violation of any provision of s. 

458.3265 or s. 459.0137 is occurring or has occurred and reasonably believes that obtaining such 

authorization is not feasible due to the volume of the dispensing and prescribing activity involving 

controlled substances and that obtaining patient authorization or the issuance of a subpoena would 

jeopardize the investigation. 

2.The department may obtain patient records and insurance information pursuant to a subpoena 

without written authorization from the patient if the department and the probable cause panel of the 

appropriate board, if any, find reasonable cause to believe that a health care practitioner has provided 

inadequate medical care based on termination of insurance and also find that appropriate, reasonable 

attempts were made to obtain a patient release. 

3.The department may obtain patient records, billing records, insurance information, provider 

contracts, and all attachments thereto pursuant to a subpoena without written authorization from the 

patient if the department and probable cause panel of the appropriate board, if any, find reasonable 

cause to believe that a health care practitioner has submitted a claim, statement, or bill using a billing 

code that would result in payment greater in amount than would be paid using a billing code that 

accurately describes the services performed, requested payment for services that were not performed 

by that health care practitioner, used information derived from a written report of an automobile 

accident generated pursuant to chapter 316 to solicit or obtain patients personally or through an agent 

regardless of whether the information is derived directly from the report or a summary of that report 

or from another person, solicited patients fraudulently, received a kickback as defined in s. 456.054, 

violated the patient brokering provisions of s. 817.505, or presented or caused to be presented a false 

or fraudulent insurance claim within the meaning of s. 817.234(1)(a), and also find that, within the 

meaning of s. 817.234(1 )(a), patient authorization cannot be obtained because the patient cannot be 

located or is deceased, incapacitated, or suspected of being a participant in the fraud or scheme, and 

if the subpoena is issued for specific and relevant records. 

4.Notwithstanding subparagraphs 1 .-3., when the department investigates a professional liability 

claim or undertakes action pursuant to s. 456.049 or s. 627.912, the department may obtain patient 

records pursuant to a subpoena without written authorization from the patient if the patient refuses to 

cooperate or if the department attempts to obtain a patient release and the failure to obtain the 

patient records would be detrimental to the investigation. 



(b)Patient records, billing records, insurance information, provider contracts, and all attachments 

thereto obtained by the department pursuant to this subsection shall be used solely for the purpose of 

the department and the appropriate regulatory board in disciplinary proceedings. This section does not 

limit the assertion of the psychotherapist-patient privilege under s. 90.503 in regard to records of 

treatment for mental or nervous disorders by a medical practitioner licensed pursuant to chapter 458 

or chapter 459 who has primarily diagnosed and treated mental and nervous disorders for a period of 

not less than 3 years, inclusive of psychiatric residency. However, the health care practitioner shall 

release records of treatment for medical conditions even if the health care practitioner has also 

treated the patient for mental or nervous disorders. If the department has found reasonable cause 

under this section and the psychotherapist-patient privilege is asserted, the department may petition 

the circuit court for an in camera review of the records by expert medical practitioners appointed by 

the court to determine if the records or any part thereof are protected under the psychotherapist- 

patient privilege. 

(10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents maintained by the 

department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and 

shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate regulatory board in its 

investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The records shall not be available to 

the public as part of the record of investigation for and prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made 

available to the public by the department or the appropriate board. 

(b)Notwithstanding paragraph (a), all patient records obtained by the department and any other 

documents maintained by the department which relate to a current or former Medicaid recipient shall 

be provided to the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit in the Department of Legal Affairs, upon request. 

(11 )All records owners shall develop and implement policies, standards, and procedures to protect 

the confidentiality and security of the medical record. Employees of records owners shall be trained in 

these policies, standards, and procedures. 

(12)Records owners are responsible for maintaining a record of all disclosures of information 

contained in the medical record to a third party, including the purpose of the disclosure request. The 

record of disclosure may be maintained in the medical record. The third party to whom information is 

disclosed is prohibited from further disclosing any information in the medical record without the 

expressed written consent of the patient or the patient's legal representative. 

(13)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 456.058, records owners shall place an advertisement in 

the local newspaper or notify patients, in writing, when they are terminating practice, retiring, or 

relocating, and no longer available to patients, and offer patients the opportunity to obtain a copy of 

their medical record. 

(14)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 456.058, records owners shall notify the appropriate board 

office when they are terminating practice, retiring, or relocating, and no longer available to patients, 

specifying who the new records owner is and where medical records can be found. 



(15)Whenever a records owner has turned records over to a new records owner, the new records 

owner shalt be responsible for providing a copy of the complete medical record, upon written request, 

of the patient or the patient's legal representative. 

(16)Licensees in violation of the provisions of this section shall be disciplined by the appropriate 

licensing authority. 

(17)The Attorney General is authorized to enforce the provisions of this section for records owners 

not otherwise licensed by the state, through injunctive relief and fines not to exceed $5,000 per 

violation. 

(18)A health care practitioner or records owner furnishing copies of reports or records or making 

the reports or records available for digital scanning pursuant to this section shall charge no more than 

the actual cost of copying, including reasonable staff time, or the amount specified in administrative 

rule by the appropriate board, or the department when there is no board. 

(19)Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit health care practitioner consultations, as 

necessary. 

(20)A records owner shall release to a health care practitioner who, as an employee of the records 

owner, previously provided treatment to a patient, those records that the health care practitioner 

actually created or generated when the health care practitioner treated the patient. Records released 

pursuant to this subsection shall be released only upon written request of the health care practitioner 

and shall be limited to the notes, plans of care, and orders and summaries that were actually 

generated by the health care practitioner requesting the record. 

(21 )The board, or department when there is no board, may temporarily or permanently appoint a 

person or entity as a custodian of medical records in the event of the death of a practitioner, the 

mental or physical incapacitation of the practitioner, or the abandonment of medical records by a 

practitioner. The custodian appointed shall comply with all provisions of this section, including the 

release of patient records. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 79-302; s. 1, ch. 82-22; s. 1, ch. 83-108; s. 81, ch. 83-218; ss. 14, 119, ch. 83-329; s. 2, ch. 84-15; s. 

41, ch. 85-175; s. 4, ch. 87-333; s. 9, ch. 88-1; s. 2, ch. 88-208; s. 14, ch. 88-219; s. 6, ch. 88-277; s. 10, ch. 88-392; s. 2, 

ch. 89-85; s. 14, ch. 89-124; s. 28, ch. 89-289; s. 1, ch. 90-263; s. 11, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-140; s. 12, ch. 91-176; s. 4, 

ch. 91 -269; s. 62, ch. 92-33; s. 32, ch. 92-149; s. 23, ch. 93-129; s. 315, ch. 94-119; ss. 90, 91, ch. 94-218; s. 308, ch. 96- 

406; s. 1084, ch. 97-103; s. 82, ch. 97-261; s. 6, ch. 98-166; s. 12, ch. 99-349; s. 86, ch. 99-397; s. 79, ch. 2000-160; s. 9, 

ch. 2000-163; s. 114, ch. 2000-318; s. 9, ch. 2001-222; ss. 69, 140, ch. 2001-277; s. 18, ch. 2003-416; s. 4, ch. 2005-256; 

s. 1, ch. 2006-271; s. 2, ch. 2010-211. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.241; s. 455.667. 

456.O575Duty to notify patients.—Every licensed health care practitioner shall inform each 

patient, or an individual identified pursuant to s. 765.401 (1), in person about adverse incidents that 

result in serious harm to the patient. Notification of outcomes of care that result in harm to the 



patient under this section shall not constitute an acknowledgment of admission of liability, nor can 

such notifications be introduced as evidence. 

History.—s. 8, ch. 2003-416. 

456.O58Disposition of records of deceased practitioners or practitioners relocating or 

terminating practice.—Each board created under the provisions of chapter 457, chapter 458, chapter 

459, chapter 460, chapter 461, chapter 463, part I of chapter 464, chapter 465, chapter 466, part I of 

chapter 484, chapter 486, chapter 490, or chapter 491, and the department under the provisions of 

chapter 462, shall provide by rule for the disposition, under that chapter, of the medical records or 

records of a psychological nature of practitioners which are in existence at the time the practitioner 

dies, terminates practice, or relocates and is no longer available to patients and which records pertain 

to the practitioner's patients. The rules shall provide that the records be retained for at least 2 years 

after the practitioner's death, termination of practice, or relocation. In the case of the death of the 

practitioner, the rules shall provide for the disposition of such records by the estate of the 

practitioner. 

History.—s. 85, ch. 97-261; s. 80, ch. 2000-160; s. 115, ch. 2000-318. 

Note.—Former s. 455.677. 

456.O59Communications confidential; exceptions.—Communications between a patient and a 

psychiatrist, as defined in s. 394.455, shall be held confidential and shall not be disclosed except upon 

the request of the patient or the patient's legal representative. Provision of psychiatric records and 

reports shall be governed by s. 456.057. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section or s. 

90.503, where: 

(1 )A patient is engaged in a treatment relationship with a psychiatrist; 

(2)Such patient has made an actual threat to physically harm an identifiable victim or victims; and 

(3)The treating psychiatrist makes a clinical judgment that the patient has the apparent capability 

to commit such an act and that it is more likely than not that in the near future the patient will carry 

out that threat, 

the psychiatrist may disclose patient communications to the extent necessary to warn any potential 

victim or to communicate the threat to a law enforcement agency. No civil or criminal action shall be 

instituted, and there shall be no liability on account of disclosure of otherwise confidential 

communications by a psychiatrist in disclosing a threat pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 10, ch. 88-1; s. 33, ch. 92-149; s. 43, ch. 96-169; s. 83, ch. 97-261; s. 81, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2415; s. 455.671. 

456.O6lPractitioner disclosure of confidential information; immunity from civil or criminal 

liability. 

(1 )A practitioner regulated through the Division of Medical Quality Assurance of the department 



shall not be civilly or criminally liable for the disclosure of otherwise confidential information to a 

sexual partner or a needle-sharing partner under the following circumstances: 

(a)If a patient of the practitioner who has tested positive for human immunodeficiency virus 

discloses to the practitioner the identity of a sexual partner or a needle-sharing partner; 

(b)The practitioner recommends the patient notify the sexual partner or the needle-sharing 

partner of the positive test and refrain from engaging in sexual or drug activity in a manner likely to 

transmit the virus and the patient refuses, and the practitioner informs the patient of his or her intent 

to inform the sexual partner or needle-sharing partner; and 

(c)If pursuant to a perceived civil duty or the ethical guidelines of the profession, the practitioner 

reasonably and in good faith advises the sexual partner or the needle-sharing partner of the patient of 

the positive test and facts concerning the transmission of the virus. 

However, any notification of a sexual partner or a needle-sharing partner pursuant to this section 

shall be done in accordance with protocols developed pursuant to rule of the Department of Health. 

(2)Notwithstanding the foregoing, a practitioner regulated through the Division of Medical Quality 

Assurance of the department shall not be civilly or criminally liable for failure to disclose information 

relating to a positive test result for human immunodeficiency virus of a patient to a sexual partner or a 

needle-sharing partner. 

History.—s. 43, ch. 88-380; s. 12, ch. 89-350; s. 191, ch. 97-103; s. 84, ch. 97-261; s. 220, ch. 99-8; s. 82, ch. 2000- 

160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2416; s. 455.674. 

456.O62Advertisement by a health care practitioner of free or discounted services; required 

statement.—In any advertisement for a free, discounted fee, or reduced fee service, examination, or 

treatment by a health care practitioner licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 460, chapter 

461, chapter 462, chapter 463, chapter 464, chapter 465, chapter 466, chapter 467, chapter 478, 

chapter 483, part I of chapter 484, chapter 486, chapter 490, or chapter 491, the following statement 

shall appear in capital letters clearly distinguishable from the rest of the text: THE PATIENT AND ANY 

OTHER PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYMENT HAS A RIGHT TO REFUSE TO PAY, CANCEL PAYMENT, OR BE 

REIMBURSED FOR PAYMENT FOR ANY OTHER SERVICE, EXAMINATION, OR TREATMENT THAT IS 

PERFORMED AS A RESULT OF AND WITHIN 72 HOURS OF RESPONDING TO THE ADVERTISEMENT FOR THE 

FREE, DISCOUNTED FEE, OR REDUCED FEE SERVICE, EXAMINATION, OR TREATMENT. However, the 

required statement shall not be necessary as an accompaniment to an advertisement of a licensed 

health care practitioner defined by this section if the advertisement appears in a classified directory 

the primary purpose of which is to provide products and services at free, reduced, or discounted prices 

to consumers and in which the statement prominently appears in at least one place. 

History.—s. 81, ch. 97-261; s. 85, ch. 99-397; s. 82, ch. 2000-160; s. 1, ch. 2006-215. 

Note.—Former s. 455.664. 



456.O63Sexual misconduct; disqualification for license, certificate, or registration.— 

(1 )Sexual misconduct in the practice of a health care profession means violation of the professional 

relationship through which the health care practitioner uses such relationship to engage or attempt to 

engage the patient or client, or an immediate family member, guardian, or representative of the 

patient or client in, or to induce or attempt to induce such person to engage in, verbal or physical 

sexual activity outside the scope of the professional practice of such health care profession. Sexual 

misconduct in the practice of a health care profession is prohibited. 

(2)Each board within the jurisdiction of the department, or the department if there is no board, 

shall refuse to admit a candidate to any examination and refuse to issue a license, certificate, or 

registration to any applicant if the candidate or applicant has: 

(a)Had any license, certificate, or registration to practice any profession or occupation revoked or 

surrendered based on a violation of sexual misconduct in the practice of that profession under the laws 

of any other state or any territory or possession of the United States and has not had that license, 

certificate, or registration reinstated by the licensing authority of the jurisdiction that revoked the 

license, certificate, or registration; or 

(b)Committed any act in any other state or any territory or possession of the United States which if 

committed in this state would constitute sexual misconduct. 

For purposes of this subsection, a licensing authority's acceptance of a candidate's relinquishment of 

a license which is offered in response to or in anticipation of the filing of administrative charges 

against the candidate's license constitutes the surrender of the license. 

(3)Licensed health care practitioners shall report allegations of sexual misconduct to the 

department, regardless of the practice setting in which the alleged sexual misconduct occurred. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 95-183; s. 52, ch. 97-261; s. 78, ch. 99-397; s. 82, ch. 2000-160; s. 25, ch. 2000-318; s. 70, ch. 2001- 

277. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2142; s. 455.567. 

456.O635Health care fraud; disqualification for license, certificate, or registration.— 

(1 )Health care fraud in the practice of a health care profession is prohibited. 

(2)Each board within the jurisdiction of the department, or the department if there is no board, 

shall refuse to admit a candidate to any examination and refuse to issue a license, certificate, or 

registration to any applicant if the candidate or applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing 

employee, or affiliated person of the applicant: 

(a)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under chapter 409, chapter 817, or chapter 893, or a similar felony offense 

committed in another state or jurisdiction, unless the candidate or applicant has successfully 

completed a drug court program for that felony and provides proof that the plea has been withdrawn 

or the charges have been dismissed. Any such conviction or plea shall exclude the applicant or 



candidate from licensure, examination, certification, or registration unless the sentence and any 

subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ended: 

1.For felonies of the first or second degree, more than 15 years before the date of application. 

2.For felonies of the third degree, more than 10 years before the date of application, except for 

felonies of the third degree under s. 893.13(6)(a). 

3.For felonies of the third degree under s. 893.13(6)(a), more than 5 years before the date of 

application; 

(b)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970, or 42 U.S.C. ss. 1395-1396, unless the sentence and 

any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ended more than 15 years before the 

date of the application; 

(c)Has been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid program pursuant to s. 409.91 3, unless 

the candidate or applicant has been in good standing with the Florida Medicaid program for the most 

recent 5 years; 

(d)Has been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the state, 

from any other state Medicaid program, unless the candidate or applicant has been in good standing 

with a state Medicaid program for the most recent 5 years and the termination occurred at least 20 

years before the date of the application; or 

(e)Is currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 

Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities. 

This subsection does not apply to candidates or applicants for initial licensure or certification who 

were enrolled in an educational or training program on or before July 1, 2009, which was recognized by 

a board or, if there is no board, recognized by the department, and who applied for licensure after 

July 1,2012. 

(3)The department shall refuse to renew a license, certificate, or registration of any applicant if 

the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 

applicant: 

(a)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under chapter 409, chapter 817, or chapter 893, or a similar felony offense 

committed in another state or jurisdiction, unless the applicant is currently enrolled in a drug court 

program that allows the withdrawal of the plea for that felony upon successful completion of that 

program. Any such conviction or plea excludes the applicant from licensure renewal unless the 

sentence and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ended: 

1.For felonies of the first or second degree, more than 15 years before the date of application. 

2.For felonies of the third degree, more than 10 years before the date of application, except for 

felonies of the third degree under s. 893.13(6)(a). 

3.For felonies of the third degree under s. 893.13(6)(a), more than 5 years before the date of 



application. 

(b)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970, or 42 U.S.C. ss. 1395-1396 since July 1, 2009, unless 

the sentence and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ended more than 15 

years before the date of the application. 

(c)Has been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid program pursuant to s. 409.913, unless 

the applicant has been in good standing with the Florida Medicaid program for the most recent 5 years. 

(d)Has been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the state, 

from any other state Medicaid program, unless the applicant has been in good standing with a state 

Medicaid program for the most recent 5 years and the termination occurred at least 20 years before 

the date of the application. 

(e)Is currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 

Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities. 

(4)Licensed health care practitioners shall report allegations of health care fraud to the 

department, regardless of the practice setting in which the alleged health care fraud occurred. 

(5)The acceptance by a licensing authority of a licensee's relinquishment of a license which is 

offered in response to or anticipation of the filing of administrative charges alleging health care fraud 

or similar charges constitutes the permanent revocation of the license. 

History.—s. 24, ch. 2009-223; s. 1, ch. 2012-64. 

456.O65Unlicensed practice of a health care profession; intent; cease and desist notice; 

penalties; enforcement; citations; fees; allocation and disposition of moneys collected.— 

(1 )It is the intent of the Legislature that vigorous enforcement of licensure regulation for all health 

care professions is a state priority in order to protect Florida residents and visitors from the potentially 

serious and dangerous consequences of receiving medical and health care services from unlicensed 

persons whose professional education and training and other relevant qualifications have not been 

approved through the issuance of a license by the appropriate regulatory board or the department 

when there is no board. The unlicensed practice of a health care profession or the performance or 

delivery of medical or health care services to patients in this state without a valid, active license to 

practice that profession, regardless of the means of the performance or delivery of such services, is 

strictly prohibited. 

(2)The penalties for unlicensed practice of a health care profession shall include the following: 

(a)When the department has probable cause to believe that any person not licensed by the 

department, or the appropriate regulatory board within the department, has violated any provision of 

this chapter or any statute that relates to the practice of a profession regulated by the department, or 

any rule adopted pursuant thereto, the department may issue and deliver to such person a notice to 

cease and desist from such violation. In addition, the department may issue and deliver a notice to 



cease and desist to any person who aids and abets the unlicensed practice of a profession by employing 

such unlicensed person. The issuance of a notice to cease and desist shall not constitute agency action 

for which a hearing under ss. 120.569 and 120.57 may be sought. For the purpose of enforcing a cease 

and desist order, the department may file a proceeding in the name of the state seeking issuance of an 

injunction or a writ of mandamus against any person who violates any provisions of such order. 

(b)In addition to the remedies under paragraph (a), the department may impose by citation an 

administrative penalty not to exceed $5,000 per incident. The citation shall be issued to the subject 

and shall contain the subject's name and any other information the department determines to be 

necessary to identify the subject, a brief factual statement, the sections of the law allegedly violated, 

and the penalty imposed. If the subject does not dispute the matter in the citation with the 

department within 30 days after the citation is served, the citation shall become a final order of the 

department. The department may adopt rules to implement this section. The penalty shall be a fine of 

not less than $500 nor more than $5,000 as established by rule of the department. Each day that the 

unlicensed practice continues after issuance of a notice to cease and desist constitutes a separate 

violation. The department shall be entitled to recover the costs of investigation and prosecution in 

addition to the fine levied pursuant to the citation. Service of a citation may be made by personal 

service or by mail to the subject at the subject's last known address or place of practice. If the 

department is required to seek enforcement of the cease and desist or agency order, it shall be 

entitled to collect its attorney's fees and costs. 

(c)In addition to or in lieu of any other administrative remedy, the department may seek the 

imposition of a civil penalty through the circuit court for any violation for which the department may 

issue a notice to cease and desist. The civil penalty shall be no less than $500 and no more than $5,000 

for each offense. The court may also award to the prevailing party court costs and reasonable attorney 

fees and, in the event the department prevails, may also award reasonable costs of investigation and 

prosecution. 

(d)In addition to the administrative and civil remedies under paragraphs (b) and (c) and in addition 

to the criminal violations and penalties listed in the individual health care practice acts: 

1 .It is a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, 

to practice, attempt to practice, or offer to practice a health care profession without an active, valid 

Florida license to practice that profession. Practicing without an active, valid license also includes 

practicing on a suspended, revoked, or void license, but does not include practicing, attempting to 

practice, or offering to practice with an inactive or delinquent license for a period of up to 12 months 

which is addressed in subparagraph 3. Applying for employment for a position that requires a license 

without notifying the employer that the person does not currently possess a valid, active license to 

practice that profession shall be deemed to be an attempt or offer to practice that health care 

profession without a license. Holding oneself out, regardless of the means of communication, as able to 

practice a health care profession or as able to provide services that require a health care license shall 



be deemed to be an attempt or offer to practice such profession without a license. The minimum 

penalty for violating this subparagraph shall be a fine of $1,000 and a minimum mandatory period of 

incarceration of 1 year. 

2.It is a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 

775.084, to practice a health care profession without an active, valid Florida license to practice that 

profession when such practice results in serious bodily injury. For purposes of this section, "serious 

bodily injury" means death; brain or spinal damage; disfigurement; fracture or dislocation of bones or 

joints; limitation of neurological, physical, or sensory function; or any condition that required 

subsequent surgical repair. The minimum penalty for violating this subparagraph shall be a fine of 

$1,000 and a minimum mandatory period of incarceration of 1 year. 

3.It is a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083, to 

practice, attempt to practice, or offer to practice a health care profession with an inactive or 

delinquent license for any period of time up to 12 months. However, practicing, attempting to 

practice, or offering to practice a health care profession when that person's license has been inactive 

or delinquent for a period of time of 12 months or more shall be a felony of the third degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. The minimum penalty for violating this 

subparagraph shall be a term of imprisonment of 30 days and a fine of $500. 

(3)Because all enforcement costs should be covered by professions regulated by the department, 

the department shall impose, upon initial licensure and each licensure renewal, a special fee of $5 per 

licensee to fund efforts to combat unlicensed activity. Such fee shall be in addition to all other fees 

collected from each licensee. The department shall make direct charges to the Medical Quality 

Assurance Trust Fund by profession. The department shall seek board advice regarding enforcement 

methods and strategies. The department shall directly credit the Medical Quality Assurance Trust Fund, 

by profession, with the revenues received from the department's efforts to enforce licensure 

provisions. The department shall include all financial and statistical data resulting from unlicensed 

activity enforcement as a separate category in the quarterly management report provided for in s. 

456.025. For an unlicensed activity account, a balance which remains at the end of a renewal cycle 

may, with concurrence of the applicable board and the department, be transferred to the operating 

fund account of that profession. The department shall also use these funds to inform and educate 

consumers generally on the importance of using licensed health care practitioners. 

(4)The provisions of this section apply only to health care professional practice acts administered 

by the department. 

(5)Nothing herein shall be construed to limit or restrict the sale, use, or recommendation of the 

use of a dietary supplement, as defined by the Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. s. 321, so long 

as the person selling, using, or recommending the dietary supplement does so in compliance with 

federal and state law. 

History.—s. 73, ch. 97-261; s. 84, ch. 2000-160; s. 35, ch. 2000-318; s. 54, ch. 2001 -277. 







(k)Failing to perform any statutory or legal obligation placed upon a licensee. For purposes of this 

section, failing to repay a student loan issued or guaranteed by the state or the Federal Government in 

accordance with the terms of the loan or failing to comply with service scholarship obligations shall be 

considered a failure to perform a statutory or legal obligation, and the minimum disciplinary action 

imposed shall be a suspension of the license until new payment terms are agreed upon or the 

scholarship obligation is resumed, followed by probation for the duration of the student loan or 

remaining scholarship obligation period, and a fine equal to 10 percent of the defaulted loan amount. 

Fines collected shall be deposited into the Medical Quality Assurance Trust Fund. 

(l)Making or filing a report which the licensee knows to be false, intentionally or negligently failing 

to file a report or record required by state or federal law, or willfully impeding or obstructing another 

person to do so. Such reports or records shall include only those that are signed in the capacity of a 

licensee. 

(m)Making deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of a 

profession or employing a trick or scheme in or related to the practice of a profession. 

(n)Exercising influence on the patient or client for the purpose of financial gain of the licensee or a 

third party. 

(o)Practicing or offering to practice beyond the scope permitted by law or accepting and 

performing professional responsibilities the licensee knows, or has reason to know, the licensee is not 

competent to perform. 

(p)Delegating or contracting for the performance of professional responsibilities by a person when 

the licensee delegating or contracting for performance of the responsibilities knows, or has reason to 

know, the person is not qualified by training, experience, and authorization when required to perform 

them. 

(q)Violating a lawful order of the department or the board, or failing to comply with a lawfully 

issued subpoena of the department. 

(r)Improperly interfering with an investigation or inspection authorized by statute, or with any 

disciplinary proceeding. 

(s)Failing to comply with the educational course requirements for domestic violence. 

(t)Failing to identify through written notice, which may include the wearing of a name tag, or 

orally to a patient the type of license under which the practitioner is practicing. Any advertisement for 

health care services naming the practitioner must identify the type of license the practitioner holds. 

This paragraph does not apply to a practitioner while the practitioner is providing services in a facility 

licensed under chapter 394, chapter 395, chapter 400, or chapter 429. Each board, or the department 

where there is no board, is authorized by rule to determine how its practitioners may comply with this 

disclosure requirement. 

(u)Failing to comply with the requirements of ss. 381 .026 and 381 .0261 to provide patients with 

information about their patient rights and how to file a patient complaint. 



(v)Engaging or attempting to engage in sexual misconduct as defined and prohibited in s. 

456.063(1). 

(w)Failing to comply with the requirements for profiling and credentialing, including, but not 

limited to, failing to provide initial information, failing to timely provide updated information, or 

making misleading, untrue, deceptive, or fraudulent representations on a profile, credentialing, or 

initial or renewal licensure application. 

(x)Failing to report to the board, or the department if there is no board, in writing within 30 days 

after the licensee has been convicted or found guilty of, or entered a plea of nob contendere to, 

regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction. Convictions, findings, adjudications, and pleas 

entered into prior to the enactment of this paragraph must be reported in writing to the board, or 

department if there is no board, on or before October 1, 1999. 

(y)Using information about people involved in motor vehicle accidents which has been derived from 

accident reports made by law enforcement officers or persons involved in accidents under s. 316.066, 

or using information published in a newspaper or other news publication or through a radio or 

television broadcast that has used information gained from such reports, for the purposes of 

commercial or any other solicitation whatsoever of the people involved in the accidents. 

(z)Being unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety to patients by reason of illness or use 

of alcohol, drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental or 

physical condition. In enforcing this paragraph, the department shall have, upon a finding of the State 

Surgeon General or the State Surgeon General's designee that probable cause exists to believe that the 

licensee is unable to practice because of the reasons stated in this paragraph, the authority to issue an 

order to compel a licensee to submit to a mental or physical examination by physicians designated by 

the department. If the licensee refuses to comply with the order, the department's order directing the 

examination may be enforced by filing a petition for enforcement in the circuit court where the 

licensee resides or does business. The department shall be entitled to the summary procedure provided 

in s. 51 .011. A licensee or certificateholder affected under this paragraph shall at reasonable intervals 

be afforded an opportunity to demonstrate that he or she can resume the competent practice of his or 

her profession with reasonable skill and safety to patients. 

(aa)Testing positive for any drug, as defined in s. 112.0455, on any confirmed preempboyment or 

employer-ordered drug screening when the practitioner does not have a lawful prescription and 

legitimate medical reason for using the drug. 

(bb)Performing or attempting to perform health care services on the wrong patient, a wrong-site 

procedure, a wrong procedure, or an unauthorized procedure or a procedure that is medically 

unnecessary or otherwise unrelated to the patient's diagnosis or medical condition. For the purposes of 

this paragraph, performing or attempting to perform health care services includes the preparation of 

the patient. 

(cc)Leaving a foreign body in a patient, such as a sponge, clamp, forceps, surgical needle, or other 



paraphernalia commonly used in surgical, examination, or other diagnostic procedures. For the 

purposes of this paragraph, it shall be legally presumed that retention of a foreign body is not in the 

best interest of the patient and is not within the standard of care of the profession, regardless of the 

intent of the professional. 

(dd)Violating any provision of this chapter, the applicable practice act, or any rules adopted 

pursuant thereto. 

(ee)With respect to making a personal injury protection claim as required by s. 627.736, 

intentionally submitting a claim, statement, or bill that has been "upcoded" as defined in s. 627.732. 

(ff)With respect to making a personal injury protection claim as required by s. 627.736, 

intentionally submitting a claim, statement, or bill for payment of services that were not rendered. 

(gg)Engaging in a pattern of practice when prescribing medicinal drugs or controlled substances 

which demonstrates a lack of reasonable skill or safety to patients, a violation of any provision of this 

chapter, a violation of the applicable practice act, or a violation of any rules adopted under this 

chapter or the applicable practice act of the prescribing practitioner. Notwithstanding s. 456.073(1 3), 

the department may initiate an investigation and establish such a pattern from billing records, data, or 

any other information obtained by the department. 

(hh)Being terminated from a treatment program for impaired practitioners, which is overseen by 

an impaired practitioner consultant as described in s. 456.076, for failure to comply, without good 

cause, with the terms of the monitoring or treatment contract entered into by the licensee, or for not 

successfully completing any drug treatment or alcohol treatment program. 

(ii)Being convicted of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, any misdemeanor or 

felony, regardless of adjudication, under 18 U.S.C. s. 669, ss. 285-287, s. 371, s. 1001, s. 1035, s. 1341, 

s. 1343, s. 1347, s. 1349, or s. 1518, or 42 U.S.C. ss. 1320a-7b, relating to the Medicaid program. 

(jj)Failing to remit the sum owed to the state for an overpayment from the Medicaid program 

pursuant to a final order, judgment, or stipulation or settlement. 

(kk)Being terminated from the state Medicaid program pursuant to s. 409.913, any other state 

Medicaid program, or the federal Medicare program, unless eligibility to participate in the program 

from which the practitioner was terminated has been restored. 

(ll)Being convicted of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, any misdemeanor or 

felony, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to health care fraud. 

(mm)Failure to comply with controlled substance prescribing requirements of s. 456.44. 

(nn)Violating any of the provisions of s. 790.338. 

(2)When the board, or the department when there is no board, finds any person guilty of the 

grounds set forth in subsection (1) or of any grounds set forth in the applicable practice act, including 

conduct constituting a substantial violation of subsection (1) or a violation of the applicable practice 

act which occurred prior to obtaining a license, it may enter an order imposing one or more of the 

following penalties: 



(a)Refusal to certify, or to certify with restrictions, an application for a license. 

(b)Suspension or permanent revocation of a license. 

(c)Restriction of practice or license, including, but not limited to, restricting the licensee from 

practicing in certain settings, restricting the licensee to work only under designated conditions or in 

certain settings, restricting the licensee from performing or providing designated clinical and 

administrative services, restricting the licensee from practicing more than a designated number of 

hours, or any other restriction found to be necessary for the protection of the public health, safety, 

and welfare. 

(d)Imposition of an administrative fine not to exceed $10,000 for each count or separate offense. If 

the violation is for fraud or making a false or fraudulent representation, the board, or the department 

if there is no board, must impose a fine of $10,000 per count or offense. 

(e)Issuance of a reprimand or letter of concern. 

(f)Placement of the licensee on probation for a period of time and subject to such conditions as 

the board, or the department when there is no board, may specify. Those conditions may include, but 

are not limited to, requiring the licensee to undergo treatment, attend continuing education courses, 

submit to be reexamined, work under the supervision of another licensee, or satisfy any terms which 

are reasonably tailored to the violations found. 

(g)Corrective action. 

(h)Imposition of an administrative fine in accordance with s. 381 .0261 for violations regarding 

patient rights. 

(i)Refund of fees billed and collected from the patient or a third party on behalf of the patient. 

(j)Requirement that the practitioner undergo remedial education. 

In determining what action is appropriate, the board, or department when there is no board, must 

first consider what sanctions are necessary to protect the public or to compensate the patient. Only 

after those sanctions have been imposed may the disciplining authority consider and include in the 

order requirements designed to rehabilitate the practitioner. All costs associated with compliance with 

orders issued under this subsection are the obligation of the practitioner. 

(3)(a)Notwithstanding subsection (2), if the ground for disciplinary action is the first-time failure of 

the licensee to satisfy continuing education requirements established by the board, or by the 

department if there is no board, the board or department, as applicable, shall issue a citation in 

accordance with s. 456.077 and assess a fine, as determined by the board or department by rule. In 

addition, for each hour of continuing education not completed or completed late, the board or 

department, as applicable, may require the licensee to take 1 additional hour of continuing education 

for each hour not completed or completed late. 

(b)Notwithstanding subsection (2), if the ground for disciplinary action is the first-time violation of 

a practice act for unprofessional conduct, as used in ss. 464.01 8(1 )(h), 467.203(1)(f), 468.365(1)(f), and 

478.52(1 )(f), and no actual harm to the patient occurred, the board or department, as applicable, shall 



issue a citation in accordance with s. 456.077 and assess a penalty as determined by rule of the board 

or department. 

(4)In addition to any other discipline imposed through final order, or citation, entered on or after 

July 1, 2001, under this section or discipline imposed through final order, or citation, entered on or 

after July 1, 2001, for a violation of any practice act, the board, or the department when there is no 

board, shall assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of the case. The costs related to 

the investigation and prosecution include, but are not limited to, salaries and benefits of personnel, 

costs related to the time spent by the attorney and other personnel working on the case, and any other 

expenses incurred by the department for the case. The board, or the department when there is no 

board, shall determine the amount of costs to be assessed after its consideration of an affidavit of 

itemized costs and any written objections thereto. In any case where the board or the department 

imposes a fine or assessment and the fine or assessment is not paid within a reasonable time, the 

reasonable time to be prescribed in the rules of the board, or the department when there is no board, 

or in the order assessing the fines or costs, the department or the Department of Legal Affairs may 

contract for the collection of, or bring a civil action to recover, the fine or assessment. 

(5)In addition to, or in lieu of, any other remedy or criminal prosecution, the department may file 

a proceeding in the name of the state seeking issuance of an injunction or a writ of mandamus against 

any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter, or any provision of law with respect to 

professions regulated by the department, or any board therein, or the rules adopted pursuant thereto. 

(6)If the board, or the department when there is no board, determines that revocation of a license 

is the appropriate penalty, the revocation shall be permanent. However, the board may establish by 

rule requirements for reapplication by applicants whose licenses have been permanently revoked. The 

requirements may include, but are not limited to, satisfying current requirements for an initial license. 

(7)Notwithstanding subsection (2), upon a finding that a physician has prescribed or dispensed a 

controlled substance, or caused a controlled substance to be prescribed or dispensed, in a manner that 

violates the standard of practice set forth in s. 458.331(1 )(q) or (t), s. 459.01 5(1 )(t) or (x), s. 

461 .013(1 )(o) or (s), or s. 466.028(1 )(p) or (x), the physician shall be suspended for a period of not less 

than 6 months and pay a fine of not less than $10,000 per count. Repeated violations shall result in 

increased penalties. 

(8)The purpose of this section is to facilitate uniform discipline for those actions made punishable 

under this section and, to this end, a reference to this section constitutes a general reference under 

the doctrine of incorporation by reference. 

History.—s. 69, ch. 97-261; s. 84, ch. 99-397; s. 90, ch. 2000-160; s. 26, ch. 2000-318; s. 71, ch. 2001 -277; s. 2, ch. 

2002-254; s. 6, ch. 2003-411; s. 19, ch. 2003-416; s. 10, ch. 2004-344; s. 1, ch. 2005-240; s. 2, ch. 2006-207; s. 111, ch. 

2007-5; s. 64, ch. 2008-6; s. 25, ch. 2009-223; s. 3, ch. 2011-112; s. 1, ch. 2011-141. 

Note.—Former s. 455.624. 





investigate a complaint made by a confidential informant if the complaint is legally sufficient, if the 

alleged violation of law or rule is substantial, and if the department has reason to believe, after 

preliminary inquiry, that the allegations of the complainant are true. The department may initiate an 

investigation if it has reasonable cause to believe that a licensee or a group of licensees has violated a 

Florida statute, a rule of the department, or a rule of a board. Notwithstanding subsection (13), the 

department may investigate information filed pursuant to s. 456.041 (4) relating to liability actions with 

respect to practitioners licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459 which have been reported under s. 

456.049 or s. 627.912 within the previous 6 years for any paid claim that exceeds $50,000. Except as 

provided in ss. 458.331 (9), 459.015(9), 460.413(5), and 461 .013(6), when an investigation of any 

subject is undertaken, the department shall promptly furnish to the subject or the subject's attorney a 

copy of the complaint or document that resulted in the initiation of the investigation. The subject may 

submit a written response to the information contained in such complaint or document within 20 days 

after service to the subject of the complaint or document. The subject's written response shall be 

considered by the probable cause panel. The right to respond does not prohibit the issuance of a 

summary emergency order if necessary to protect the public. However, if the State Surgeon General, 

or the State Surgeon General's designee, and the chair of the respective board or the chair of its 

probable cause panel agree in writing that such notification would be detrimental to the investigation, 

the department may withhold notification. The department may conduct an investigation without 

notification to any subject if the act under investigation is a criminal offense. 

(2)The department shall allocate sufficient and adequately trained staff to expeditiously and 

thoroughly determine legal sufficiency and investigate all legally sufficient complaints. For purposes of 

this section, it is the intent of the Legislature that the term "expeditiously" means that the 

department complete the report of its initial investigative findings and recommendations concerning 

the existence of probable cause within 6 months after its receipt of the complaint. The failure of the 

department, for disciplinary cases under its jurisdiction, to comply with the time limits of this section 

while investigating a complaint against a licensee constitutes harmless error in any subsequent 

disciplinary action unless a court finds that either the fairness of the proceeding or the correctness of 

the action may have been impaired by a material error in procedure or a failure to follow prescribed 

procedure. When its investigation is complete and legally sufficient, the department shall prepare and 

submit to the probable cause panel of the appropriate regulatory board the investigative report of the 

department. The report shall contain the investigative findings and the recommendations of the 

department concerning the existence of probable cause. The department shall not recommend a letter 

of guidance in lieu of finding probable cause if the subject has already been issued a letter of guidance 

for a related offense. At any time after legal sufficiency is found, the department may dismiss any 

case, or any part thereof, if the department determines that there is insufficient evidence to support 

the prosecution of allegations contained therein. The department shall provide a detailed report to the 

appropriate probable cause panel prior to dismissal of any case or part thereof, and to the subject of 



the complaint after dismissal of any case or part thereof, under this section. For cases dismissed prior 

to a finding of probable cause, such report is confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1). The probable 

cause panel shall have access, upon request, to the investigative files pertaining to a case prior to 

dismissal of such case. If the department dismisses a case, the probable cause panel may retain 

independent legal counsel, employ investigators, and continue the investigation and prosecution of the 

case as it deems necessary. 

(3)As an alternative to the provisions of subsections (1) and (2), when a complaint is received, the 

department may provide a licensee with a notice of noncompliance for an initial offense of a minor 

violation. Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall establish by rule those minor 

violations under this provision which do not endanger the public health, safety, and welfare and which 

do not demonstrate a serious inability to practice the profession. Failure of a licensee to take action in 

correcting the violation within 15 days after notice may result in the institution of regular disciplinary 

proceedings. 

(4)The determination as to whether probable cause exists shall be made by majority vote of a 

probable cause panel of the board, or by the department, as appropriate. Each regulatory board shall 

provide by rule that the determination of probable cause shall be made by a panel of its members or by 

the department. Each board may provide by rule for multiple probable cause panels composed of at 

least two members. Each board may provide by rule that one or more members of the panel or panels 

may be a former board member. The length of term or repetition of service of any such former board 

member on a probable cause panel may vary according to the direction of the board when authorized 

by board rule. Any probable cause panel must include one of the board's former or present consumer 

members, if one is available, is willing to serve, and is authorized to do so by the board chair. Any 

probable cause panel must include a present board member. Any probable cause panel must include a 

former or present professional board member. However, any former professional board member serving 

on the probable cause panel must hold an active valid license for that profession. All proceedings of 

the panel are exempt from s. 286.011 until 10 days after probable cause has been found to exist by the 

panel or until the subject of the investigation waives his or her privilege of confidentiality. The 

probable cause panel may make a reasonable request, and upon such request the department shall 

provide such additional investigative information as is necessary to the determination of probable 

cause. A request for additional investigative information shall be made within 1 5 days from the date of 

receipt by the probable cause panel of the investigative report of the department or the agency. The 

probable cause panel or the department, as may be appropriate, shall make its determination of 

probable cause within 30 days after receipt by it of the final investigative report of the department. 

The State Surgeon General may grant extensions of the 15-day and the 30-day time limits. In lieu of a 

finding of probable cause, the probable cause panel, or the department if there is no board, may issue 

a letter of guidance to the subject. If, within the 30-day time limit, as may be extended, the probable 

cause panel does not make a determination regarding the existence of probable cause or does not issue 



a letter of guidance in lieu of a finding of probable cause, the department must make a determination 

regarding the existence of probable cause within 10 days after the expiration of the time limit. If the 

probable cause panel finds that probable cause exists, it shall direct the department to file a formal 

complaint against the licensee. The department shall follow the directions of the probable cause panel 

regarding the filing of a formal complaint. If directed to do so, the department shall file a formal 

complaint against the subject of the investigation and prosecute that complaint pursuant to chapter 

120. However, the department may decide not to prosecute the complaint if it finds that probable 

cause has been improvidently found by the panel. In such cases, the department shall refer the matter 

to the board. The board may then file a formal complaint and prosecute the complaint pursuant to 

chapter 120. The department shall also refer to the board any investigation or disciplinary proceeding 

not before the Division of Administrative Hearings pursuant to chapter 120 or otherwise completed by 

the department within 1 year after the filing of a complaint. The department, for disciplinary cases 

under its jurisdiction, must establish a uniform reporting system to quarterly refer to each board the 

status of any investigation or disciplinary proceeding that is not before the Division of Administrative 

Hearings or otherwise completed by the department within 1 year after the filing of the complaint. 

Annually, the department, in consultation with the applicable probable cause panel, must establish a 

plan to expedite or otherwise close any investigation or disciplinary proceeding that is not before the 

Division of Administrative Hearings or otherwise completed by the department within 1 year after the 

filing of the complaint. A probable cause panel or a board may retain independent legal counsel, 

employ investigators, and continue the investigation as it deems necessary; all costs thereof shall be 

paid from a trust fund used by the department to implement this chapter. All proceedings of the 

probable cause panel are exempt from s. 120.525. 

(5)A formal hearing before an administrative law judge from the Division of Administrative 

Hearings shall be held pursuant to chapter 120 if there are any disputed issues of material fact. The 

determination of whether or not a licensee has violated the laws and rules regulating the profession, 

including a determination of the reasonable standard of care, is a conclusion of law to be determined 

by the board, or department when there is no board, and is not a finding of fact to be determined by 

an administrative law judge. The administrative law judge shall issue a recommended order pursuant 

to chapter 120. Notwithstanding s. 120.569(2), the department shall notify the division within 45 days 

after receipt of a petition or request for a formal hearing. 

(6)The appropriate board, with those members of the panel, if any, who reviewed the investigation 

pursuant to subsection (4) being excused, or the department when there is no board, shall determine 

and issue the final order in each disciplinary case. Such order shall constitute final agency action. Any 

consent order or agreed-upon settlement shall be subject to the approval of the department. 

(7)The department shall have standing to seek judicial review of any final order of the board, 

pursuant to s. 120.68. 

(8)Any proceeding for the purpose of summary suspension of a license, or for the restriction of the 



license, of a licensee pursuant to s. 120.60(6) shall be conducted by the State Surgeon General or his or 

her designee, as appropriate, who shall issue the final summary order. 

(9)(a)The department shall periodically notify the person who filed the complaint, as well as the 

patient or the patient's legal representative, of the status of the investigation, indicating whether 

probable cause has been found and the status of any civil action or administrative proceeding or 

appeal. 

(b)In any disciplinary case for which probable cause has been found, the department shall provide 

to the person who filed the complaint a copy of the administrative complaint and: 

1 .A written explanation of how an administrative complaint is resolved by the disciplinary process. 

2.A written explanation of how and when the person may participate in the disciplinary process. 

3.A written notice of any hearing before the Division of Administrative Hearings or the regulatory 

board at which final agency action may be taken. 

(c)In any disciplinary case for which probable cause is not found, the department shall so inform 

the person who filed the complaint and notify that person that he or she may, within 60 days, provide 

any additional information to the department which may be relevant to the decision. To facilitate the 

provision of additional information, the person who filed the complaint may receive, upon request, a 

copy of the department's expert report that supported the recommendation for closure, if such a 

report was relied upon by the department. In no way does this require the department to procure an 

expert opinion or report if none was used. Additionally, the identity of the expert shall remain 

confidential. In any administrative proceeding under s. 120.57, the person who filed the disciplinary 

complaint shall have the right to present oral or written communication relating to the alleged 

disciplinary violations or to the appropriate penalty. 

(10)The complaint and all information obtained pursuant to the investigation by the department 

are confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) until 10 days after probable cause has been found to 

exist by the probable cause panel or by the department, or until the regulated professional or subject 

of the investigation waives his or her privilege of confidentiality, whichever occurs first. Upon 

completion of the investigation and a recommendation by the department to find probable cause, and 

pursuant to a written request by the subject or the subject's attorney, the department shall provide 

the subject an opportunity to inspect the investigative file or, at the subject's expense, forward to the 

subject a copy of the investigative file. Notwithstanding s. 456.057, the subject may inspect or receive 

a copy of any expert witness report or patient record connected with the investigation if the subject 

agrees in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any information received under this subsection until 

10 days after probable cause is found and to maintain the confidentiality of patient records pursuant to 

s. 456.057. The subject may file a written response to the information contained in the investigative 

file. Such response must be filed within 20 days of mailing by the department, unless an extension of 

time has been granted by the department. This subsection does not prohibit the department from 

providing such information to any law enforcement agency or to any other regulatory agency. 



(11 )A privilege against civil liability is hereby granted to any complainant or any witness with 

regard to information furnished with respect to any investigation or proceeding pursuant to this 

section, unless the complainant or witness acted in bad faith or with malice in providing such 

information. 

(12)(a)No person who reports in any capacity, whether or not required by law, information to the 

department with regard to the incompetence, impairment, or unprofessional conduct of any health 

care provider licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 460, chapter 461, chapter 462, chapter 

463, chapter 464, chapter 465, or chapter 466 shall be held liable in any civil action for reporting 

against such health care provider if such person acts without intentional fraud or malice. 

(b)No facility licensed under chapter 395, health maintenance organization certificated under part 

I of chapter 641, physician licensed under chapter 458, or osteopathic physician licensed under chapter 

459 shall discharge, threaten to discharge, intimidate, or coerce any employee or staff member by 

reason of such employee's or staff member's report to the department about a physician licensed 

under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 460, chapter 461, or chapter 466 who may be guilty of 

incompetence, impairment, or unprofessional conduct so long as such report is given without 

intentional fraud or malice. 

(c)In any civil suit brought outside the protections of paragraphs (a) and (b) in which intentional 

fraud or malice is alleged, the person alleging intentional fraud or malice shall be liable for all court 

costs and for the other party's reasonable attorney's fees if intentional fraud or malice is not proved. 

(13)Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, an administrative complaint against a 

licensee shall be filed within 6 years after the time of the incident or occurrence giving rise to the 

complaint against the licensee. If such incident or occurrence involved criminal actions, diversion of 

controlled substances, sexual misconduct, or impairment by the licensee, this subsection does not 

apply to bar initiation of an investigation or filing of an administrative complaint beyond the 6-year 

timeframe. In those cases covered by this subsection in which it can be shown that fraud, 

concealment, or intentional misrepresentation of fact prevented the discovery of the violation of law, 

the period of limitations is extended forward, but in no event to exceed 12 years after the time of the 

incident or occurrence. 

History.—s. 68, ch. 97-261; s. 23, ch. 99-7; s. 114, ch. 2000-153; s. 91, ch. 2000-160; ss. 14, 72, ch. 2001-277; s. 5, ch. 

2002-254; s. 1, ch. 2003-27; s. 20, ch. 2003-416; s. 65, ch. 2008-6. 

Note.—Former s. 455.621. 

456.O74Certain health care practitioners; immediate suspension of license.— 

(1 )The department shall issue an emergency order suspending the license of any person licensed 

under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 460, chapter 461, chapter 462, chapter 463, chapter 464, 

chapter 465, chapter 466, or chapter 484 who pleads guilty to, is convicted or found guilty of, or who 

enters a plea of nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, to: 





History.—s. 1, ch. 2002-81. 

456.O76Treatment programs for impaired practitioners.— 

(1 )For professions that do not have impaired practitioner programs provided for in their practice 

acts, the department shall, by rule, designate approved impaired practitioner programs under this 

section. The department may adopt rules setting forth appropriate criteria for approval of treatment 

providers. The rules may specify the manner in which the consultant, retained as set forth in 

subsection (2), works with the department in intervention, requirements for evaluating and treating a 

professional, requirements for continued care of impaired professionals by approved treatment 

providers, continued monitoring by the consultant of the care provided by approved treatment 

providers regarding the professionals under their care, and requirements related to the consultant's 

expulsion of professionals from the program. 

(2)The department shall retain one or more impaired practitioner consultants. The consultant shall 

be a licensee under the jurisdiction of the Division of Medical Quality Assurance within the department 

who must be a practitioner or recovered practitioner licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, or part I 

of chapter 464, or an entity employing a medical director who must be a practitioner or recovered 

practitioner licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, or part I of chapter 464. The consultant shall 

assist the probable cause panel and department in carrying out the responsibilities of this section. This 

shall include working with department investigators to determine whether a practitioner is, in fact, 

impaired. The consultant may contract for services to be provided, for appropriate compensation, if 

requested by the school, for students enrolled in schools for licensure as allopathic physicians or 

physician assistants under chapter 458, osteopathic physicians or physician assistants under chapter 

459, nurses under chapter 464, or pharmacists under chapter 465 who are alleged to be impaired as a 

result of the misuse or abuse of alcohol or drugs, or both, or due to a mental or physical condition. The 

department is not responsible under any circumstances for paying the costs of care provided by 

approved treatment providers, and the department is not responsible for paying the costs of 

consultants' services provided for students. A medical school accredited by the Liaison Committee on 

Medical Education of the Commission on Osteopathic College Accreditation, or other school providing 

for the education of students enrolled in preparation for licensure as allopathic physicians under 

chapter 458 or osteopathic physicians under chapter 459, which is governed by accreditation standards 

requiring notice and the provision of due process procedures to students, is not liable in any civil action 

for referring a student to the consultant retained by the department or for disciplinary actions that 

adversely affect the status of a student when the disciplinary actions are instituted in reasonable 

reliance on the recommendations, reports, or conclusions provided by such consultant, if the school, in 

referring the student or taking disciplinary action, adheres to the due process procedures adopted by 

the applicable accreditation entities and if the school committed no intentional fraud in carrying out 

the provisions of this section. 



(3)(a)Whenever the department receives a written or oral legally sufficient complaint alleging that 

a licensee under the jurisdiction of the Division of Medical Quality Assurance within the department is 

impaired as a result of the misuse or abuse of alcohol or drugs, or both, or due to a mental or physical 

condition which could affect the licensee's ability to practice with skill and safety, and no complaint 

against the licensee other than impairment exists, the reporting of such information shall not 

constitute grounds for discipline pursuant to s. 456.072 or the corresponding grounds for discipline 

within the applicable practice act if the probable cause panel of the appropriate board, or the 

department when there is no board, finds: 

1 .The licensee has acknowledged the impairment problem. 

2.The licensee has voluntarily enrolled in an appropriate, approved treatment program. 

3.The licensee has voluntarily withdrawn from practice or limited the scope of practice as required 

by the consultant, in each case, until such time as the panel, or the department when there is no 

board, is satisfied the licensee has successfully completed an approved treatment program. 

4.The licensee has executed releases for medical records, authorizing the release of all records of 

evaluations, diagnoses, and treatment of the licensee, including records of treatment for emotional or 

mental conditions, to the consultant. The consultant shall make no copies or reports of records that do 

not regard the issue of the licensee's impairment and his or her participation in a treatment program. 

(b)If, however, the department has not received a legally sufficient complaint and the licensee 

agrees to withdraw from practice until such time as the consultant determines the licensee has 

satisfactorily completed an approved treatment program or evaluation, the probable cause panel, or 

the department when there is no board, shall not become involved in the licensee's case. 

(c)Inquiries related to impairment treatment programs designed to provide information to the 

licensee and others and which do not indicate that the licensee presents a danger to the public shall 

not constitute a complaint within the meaning of s. 456.073 and shall be exempt from the provisions of 

this subsection. 

(d)Whenever the department receives a legally sufficient complaint alleging that a licensee is 

impaired as described in paragraph (a) and no complaint against the licensee other than impairment 

exists, the department shall forward all information in its possession regarding the impaired licensee to 

the consultant. For the purposes of this section, a suspension from hospital staff privileges due to the 

impairment does not constitute a complaint. 

(e)The probable cause panel, or the department when there is no board, shall work directly with 

the consultant, and all information concerning a practitioner obtained from the consultant by the 

panel, or the department when there is no board, shall remain confidential and exempt from the 

provisions of s. 119.07(1), subject to the provisions of subsections (5) and (6). 

(f)A finding of probable cause shall not be made as long as the panel, or the department when 

there is no board, is satisfied, based upon information it receives from the consultant and the 

department, that the licensee is progressing satisfactorily in an approved impaired practitioner 



program and no other complaint against the licensee exists. 

(4)In any disciplinary action for a violation other than impairment in which a licensee establishes 

the violation for which the licensee is being prosecuted was due to or connected with impairment and 

further establishes the licensee is satisfactorily progressing through or has successfully completed an 

approved treatment program pursuant to this section, such information may be considered by the 

board, or the department when there is no board, as a mitigating factor in determining the appropriate 

penalty. This subsection does not limit mitigating factors the board may consider. 

(5)(a)An approved treatment provider shall, upon request, disclose to the consultant all 

information in its possession regarding the issue of a licensee's impairment and participation in the 

treatment program. All information obtained by the consultant and department pursuant to this section 

is confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119.07(1), subject to the provisions of this 

subsection and subsection (6). Failure to provide such information to the consultant is grounds for 

withdrawal of approval of such program or provider. 

(b)If in the opinion of the consultant, after consultation with the treatment provider, an impaired 

licensee has not progressed satisfactorily in a treatment program, all information regarding the issue of 

a licensee's impairment and participation in a treatment program in the consultant's possession shall 

be disclosed to the department. Such disclosure shall constitute a complaint pursuant to the general 

provisions of s. 456.073. Whenever the consultant concludes that impairment affects a licensee's 

practice and constitutes an immediate, serious danger to the public health, safety, or welfare, that 

conclusion shall be communicated to the State Surgeon General. 

(6)A consultant, licensee, or approved treatment provider who makes a disclosure pursuant to this 

section is not subject to civil liability for such disclosure or its consequences. The provisions of s. 

766.101 apply to any officer, employee, or agent of the department or the board and to any officer, 

employee, or agent of any entity with which the department has contracted pursuant to this section. 

(7)(a)A consultant retained pursuant to subsection (2), a consultant's officers and employees, and 

those acting at the direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention on 

behalf of a licensee or student as described in subsection (2) when the consultant is unable to perform 

such intervention shall be considered agents of the department for purposes of s. 768.28 while acting 

within the scope of the consultant's duties under the contract with the department if the contract 

complies with the requirements of this section. The contract must require that: 

1 .The consultant indemnify the state for any liabilities incurred up to the limits set out in chapter 

768. 

2.The consultant establish a quality assurance program to monitor services delivered under the 

contract. 

3.The consultant's quality assurance program, treatment, and monitoring records be evaluated 

quarterly. 

4.The consultant's quality assurance program be subject to review and approval by the 



department. 

5.The consultant operate under policies and procedures approved by the department. 

6.The consultant provide to the department for approval a policy and procedure manual that 

comports with all statutes, rules, and contract provisions approved by the department. 

7.The department be entitled to review the records relating to the consultant's performance under 

the contract for the purpose of management audits, financial audits, or program evaluation. 

8.All performance measures and standards be subject to verification and approval by the 

department. 

9.The department be entitled to terminate the contract with the consultant for noncompliance 

with the contract. 

(b)In accordance with s. 284.385, the Department of Financial Services shall defend any claim, 

suit, action, or proceeding against the consultant, the consultant's officers or employees, or those 

acting at the direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention on 

behalf of a licensee or student as described in subsection (2) when the consultant is unable to perform 

such intervention which is brought as a result of any act or omission by any of the consultant's officers 

and employees and those acting under the direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an 

emergency intervention on behalf of a licensee or student as described in subsection (2) when the 

consultant is unable to perform such intervention when such act or omission arises out of and in the 

scope of the consultant's duties under its contract with the department. 

(c)If the consultant retained pursuant to subsection (2) is retained by any other state agency, and 

if the contract between such state agency and the consultant complies with the requirements of this 

section, the consultant, the consultant's officers and employees, and those acting under the direction 

of the consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention on behalf of a licensee or 

student as described in subsection (2) when the consultant is unable to perform such intervention shall 

be considered agents of the state for the purposes of this section while acting within the scope of and 

pursuant to guidelines established in the contract between such state agency and the consultant. 

History.—s. 38, ch. 92-149; s. 1, ch. 95-139; s. 310, ch. 96-406; s. 1085, ch. 97-103; s. 3, ch. 97-209; s. 94, ch. 97-261; 

s. 2, ch. 98-130; s. 94, ch. 2000-160; ss. 29, 117, ch. 2000-318; s. 67, ch. 2008-6; s. 1, ch. 2008-63. 

Note.—Former s. 455.261; s. 455.707. 

456.O77Authority to issue citations.— 

(1 )Notwithstanding s. 456.073, the board, or the department if there is no board, shall adopt rules 

to permit the issuance of citations. The citation shall be issued to the subject and shall contain the 

subject's name and address, the subject's license number if applicable, a brief factual statement, the 

sections of the law allegedly violated, and the penalty imposed. The citation must clearly state that 

the subject may choose, in lieu of accepting the citation, to follow the procedure under s. 456.073. If 

the subject disputes the matter in the citation, the procedures set forth in s. 456.073 must be 



followed. However, if the subject does not dispute the matter in the citation with the department 

within 30 days after the citation is served, the citation becomes a public final order and does not 

constitute discipline for a first offense, but does constitute discipline for a second or subsequent 

offense. The penalty shall be a fine or other conditions as established by rule. 

(2)The board, or the department if there is no board, shall adopt rules designating violations for 

which a citation may be issued. Such rules shall designate as citation violations those violations for 

which there is no substantial threat to the public health, safety, and welfare or no violation of 

standard of care involving injury to a patient. Violations for which a citation may be issued shall 

include violations of continuing education requirements; failure to timely pay required fees and fines; 

failure to comply with the requirements of ss. 381 .026 and 381 .0261 regarding the dissemination of 

information regarding patient rights; failure to comply with advertising requirements; failure to timely 

update practitioner profile and credentialing files; failure to display signs, licenses, and permits; 

failure to have required reference books available; and all other violations that do not pose a direct 

and serious threat to the health and safety of the patient or involve a violation of standard of care that 

has resulted in injury to a patient. 

(3)The department shall be entitled to recover the costs of investigation, in addition to any 

penalty provided according to board or department rule, as part of the penalty levied pursuant to the 

citation. 

(4)A citation must be issued within 6 months after the filing of the complaint that is the basis for 

the citation. 

(5)Service of a citation may be made by personal service or certified mail, restricted delivery, to 

the subject at the subject's last known address. 

(6)A board has 6 months in which to enact rules designating violations and penalties appropriate 

for citation offenses. Failure to enact such rules gives the department exclusive authority to adopt 

rules as required for implementing this section. A board has continuous authority to amend its rules 

adopted pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 67, ch. 97-261; s. 95, ch. 2000-160; s. 74, ch. 2001 -277; s. 21, ch. 2003-416. 

Note.—Former s. 455.617. 

456.O78Mediation.— 

(1 )Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 456.073, the board, or the department when there is no 

board, shall adopt rules to designate which violations of the applicable professional practice act are 

appropriate for mediation. The board, or the department when there is no board, shall designate as 

mediation offenses those complaints where harm caused by the licensee: 

(a)Is economic in nature except any act or omission involving intentional misconduct; 

(b)Can be remedied by the licensee; 

(c)Is not a standard of care violation involving any type of injury to a patient; or 



(d)Does not result in an adverse incident. 

(2)For the purposes of this section, an "adverse incident" means an event that results in: 

(a)The death of a patient; 

(b)Brain or spinal damage to a patient; 

(c)The performance of a surgical procedure on the wrong patient; 

(d)The performance of a wrong-site surgical procedure; 

(e)The performance of a surgical procedure that is medically unnecessary or otherwise unrelated 

to the patient's diagnosis or medical condition; 

(f)The surgical repair of damage to a patient resulting from a planned surgical procedure, which 

damage is not a recognized specific risk as disclosed to the patient and documented through the 

informed-consent process; 

(g)The performance of a procedure to remove unplanned foreign objects remaining from a surgical 

procedure; or 

(h)The performance of any other surgical procedure that breached the standard of care. 

(3)After the department determines a complaint is legally sufficient and the alleged violations are 

defined as mediation offenses, the department or any agent of the department may conduct informal 

mediation to resolve the complaint. If the complainant and the subject of the complaint agree to a 

resolution of a complaint within 14 days after contact by the mediator, the mediator shall notify the 

department of the terms of the resolution. The department or board shall take no further action unless 

the complainant and the subject each fail to record with the department an acknowledgment of 

satisfaction of the terms of mediation within 60 days of the mediator's notification to the department. 

A successful mediation shall not constitute discipline. In the event the complainant and subject fail to 

reach settlement terms or to record the required acknowledgment, the department shall process the 

complaint according to the provisions of s. 456.073. 

(4)Conduct or statements made during mediation are inadmissible in any proceeding pursuant to s. 

456.073. Further, any information relating to the mediation of a case shall be subject to the 

confidentiality provisions of s. 456.073. 

(5)No licensee shall go through the mediation process more than three times without approval of 

the department. The department may consider the subject and dates of the earlier complaints in 

rendering its decision. Such decision shall not be considered a final agency action for purposes of 

chapter 120. 

(6)Any board created on or after January 1, 1995, shall have 6 months to adopt rules designating 

which violations are appropriate for mediation, after which time the department shall have exclusive 

authority to adopt rules pursuant to this section. A board shall have continuing authority to amend its 

rules adopted pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 66, ch. 97-261; s. 96, ch. 2000-160; s. 22, ch. 2003-416. 

Note.—Former s. 455.614. 



456.O79Disciplinary guidelines.— 

(1 )Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall adopt by rule and periodically review 

the disciplinary guidelines applicable to each ground for disciplinary action which may be imposed by 

the board, or the department if there is no board, pursuant to this chapter, the respective practice 

acts, and any rule of the board or department. 

(2)The disciplinary guidelines shall specify a meaningful range of designated penalties based upon 

the severity and repetition of specific offenses, it being the legislative intent that minor violations be 

distinguished from those which endanger the public health, safety, or welfare; that such guidelines 

provide reasonable and meaningful notice to the public of likely penalties which may be imposed for 

proscribed conduct; and that such penalties be consistently applied by the board. 

(3)A specific finding in the final order of mitigating or aggravating circumstances shall allow the 

board to impose a penalty other than that provided for in such guidelines. If applicable, the board, or 

the department if there is no board, shall adopt by rule disciplinary guidelines to designate possible 

mitigating and aggravating circumstances and the variation and range of penalties permitted for such 

circumstances. 

(4)The department must review such disciplinary guidelines for compliance with the legislative 

intent as set forth herein to determine whether the guidelines establish a meaningful range of 

penalties and may also challenge such rules pursuant to s. 120.56. 

(5)The administrative law judge, in recommending penalties in any recommended order, must 

follow the penalty guidelines established by the board or department and must state in writing the 

mitigating or aggravating circumstances upon which the recommended penalty is based. 

History.—s. 70, ch. 97-261; s. 97, ch. 2000-160; s. 16, ch. 2001 -277. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.627. 

456.081 Publication of information.—The department and the boards shall have the authority to 

advise licensees periodically, through the publication of a newsletter on the department's website, 

about information that the department or the board determines is of interest to the industry. The 

department and the boards shall maintain a website which contains copies of the newsletter; 

information relating to adverse incident reports without identifying the patient, practitioner, or facility 

in which the adverse incident occurred until 10 days after probable cause is found, at which time the 

name of the practitioner and facility shall become public as part of the investigative file; information 

about error prevention and safety strategies; and information concerning best practices. Unless 

otherwise prohibited by law, the department and the boards shall publish on the website a summary of 

final orders entered after July 1, 2001, resulting in disciplinary action, and any other information the 

department or the board determines is of interest to the public. In order to provide useful and timely 

information at minimal cost, the department and boards may consult with, and include information 

provided by, professional associations and national organizations. 



History.—s. 44, ch. 97-261; s. 98, ch. 2000-160; ss. 15, 75, ch. 2001 -277. 

Note.—Former s. 455.537. 

456.O82Disclosure of confidential information.— 

(1 )No officer, employee, or person under contract with the department, or any board therein, or 

any subject of an investigation shall convey knowledge or information to any person who is not lawfully 

entitled to such knowledge or information about any public meeting or public record, which at the time 

such knowledge or information is conveyed is exempt from the provisions of s. 119.01, s. 119.07(1), or 

s. 286.011. 

(2)Any person who willfully violates any provision of this section is guilty of a misdemeanor of the 

first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083, and may be subject to discipline 

pursuant to s. 456.072, and, if applicable, shall be removed from office, employment, or the 

contractual relationship. 

(3)Any person injured as a result of a willful violation of this section shall have a civil cause of 

action for treble damages, reasonable attorney fees, and costs. 

History.—s. 77, ch. 97-261; s. 37, ch. 98-166; s. 7, ch. 99-356; s. 188, ch. 99-397; s. 99, ch. 2000-160; s. 27, ch. 2000- 

318. 

Note.—Former s. 455.651. 

456.36Health care professionals; exemption from disqualification from employment or 

contracting.—Any other provision of law to the contrary notwithstanding, only the appropriate 

regulatory board, or the department when there is no board, may grant an exemption from 

disqualification from employment or contracting as provided in s. 435.07 to a person under the 

licensing jurisdiction of that board or the department, as applicable. 

History.—s. 34, ch. 2000-318. 

456.38Practitioner registry for disasters and emergencies.—The Department of Health may 

include on its forms for the licensure or certification of health care practitioners, as defined in s. 

456.001, who could assist the department in the event of a disaster a question asking if the 

practitioner would be available to provide health care services in special needs shelters or to help staff 

disaster medical assistance teams during times of emergency or major disaster. The names of 

practitioners who answer affirmatively shall be maintained by the department as a health care 

practitioner registry for disasters and emergencies. 

History.—s. 20, ch. 2000-140. 

456.4lComplementary or alternative health care treatments.— 

(1 )LEGISLATIVE INTENT.—It is the intent of the Legislature that citizens be able to make informed 

choices for any type of health care they deem to be an effective option for treating human disease, 



pain, injury, deformity, or other physical or mental condition. It is the intent of the Legislature that 

citizens be able to choose from all health care options, including the prevailing or conventional 

treatment methods as well as other treatments designed to complement or substitute for the prevailing 

or conventional treatment methods. It is the intent of the Legislature that health care practitioners be 

able to offer complementary or alternative health care treatments with the same requirements, 

provisions, and liabilities as those associated with the prevailing or conventional treatment methods. 

(2)DEFINITIONS.—As used in this section, the term: 

(a)"Complementary or alternative health care treatment" means any treatment that is designed to 

provide patients with an effective option to the prevailing or conventional treatment methods 

associated with the services provided by a health care practitioner. Such a treatment may be provided 

in addition to or in place of other treatment options. 

(b)"Health care practitioner" means any health care practitioner as defined in s. 456.001 (4). 

(3)COMMUNICATION OF TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES.—A health care practitioner who offers to 

provide a patient with a complementary or alternative health care treatment must inform the patient 

of the nature of the treatment and must explain the benefits and risks associated with the treatment 

to the extent necessary for the patient to make an informed and prudent decision regarding such 

treatment option. In compliance with this subsection: 

(a)The health care practitioner must inform the patient of the practitioner's education, 

experience, and credentials in relation to the complementary or alternative health care treatment 

option. 

(b)The health care practitioner may, in his or her discretion, communicate the information orally 

or in written form directly to the patient or to the patient's legal representative. 

(c)The health care practitioner may, in his or her discretion and without restriction, recommend 

any mode of treatment that is, in his or her judgment, in the best interests of the patient, including 

complementary or alternative health care treatments, in accordance with the provisions of his or her 

license. 

(4)RECORDS.—Every health care practitioner providing a patient with a complementary or 

alternative health care treatment must indicate in the patient's care record the method by which the 

requirements of subsection (3) were met. 

(5)EFFECT.—This section does not modify or change the scope of practice of any licensees of the 

department, nor does it alter in any way the provisions of the individual practice acts for those 

licensees, which require licensees to practice within their respective standards of care and which 

prohibit fraud and exploitation of patients. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2001-116. 

456.42Written prescriptions for medicinal drugs.— 

(1 )A written prescription for a medicinal drug issued by a health care practitioner licensed by law 



to prescribe such drug must be legibly printed or typed so as to be capable of being understood by the 

pharmacist filling the prescription; must contain the name of the prescribing practitioner, the name 

and strength of the drug prescribed, the quantity of the drug prescribed, and the directions for use of 

the drug; must be dated; and must be signed by the prescribing practitioner on the day when issued. 

However, a prescription that is electronically generated and transmitted must contain the name of the 

prescribing practitioner, the name and strength of the drug prescribed, the quantity of the drug 

prescribed in numerical format, and the directions for use of the drug and must be dated and signed by 

the prescribing practitioner only on the day issued, which signature may be in an electronic format as 

defined in s. 668.003(4). 

(2)A written prescription for a controlled substance listed in chapter 893 must have the quantity of 

the drug prescribed in both textual and numerical formats, must be dated with the abbreviated month 

written out on the face of the prescription, and must be either written on a standardized counterfeit- 

proof prescription pad produced by a vendor approved by the department or electronically prescribed 

as that term is used in s. 408.0611. As a condition of being an approved vendor, a prescription pad 

vendor must submit a monthly report to the department which, at a minimum, documents the number 

of prescription pads sold and identifies the purchasers. The department may, by rule, require the 

reporting of additional information. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2003-41; s. 2, ch. 2006-271; s. 2, ch. 2009-202; s. 2, ch. 2011-141. 

456.43 Electronic prescribing for medicinal drugs.— 

(1 )Electronic prescribing shall not interfere with a patient's freedom to choose a pharmacy. 

(2)Electronic prescribing software shall not use any means or permit any other person to use any 

means, including, but not limited to, advertising, instant messaging, and pop-up ads, to influence or 

attempt to influence, through economic incentives or otherwise, the prescribing decision of a 

prescribing practitioner at the point of care. Such means shall not be triggered or in specific response 

to the input, selection, or act of a prescribing practitioner or his or her agent in prescribing a certain 

pharmaceutical or directing a patient to a certain pharmacy. 

(a)The term "prescribing decision" means a prescribing practitioner's decision to prescribe a 

certain pharmaceutical. 

(b)The term "point of care" means the time that a prescribing practitioner or his or her agent is in 

the act of prescribing a certain pharmaceutical. 

(3)Electronic prescribing software may show information regarding a payor's formulary as long as 

nothing is designed to preclude or make more difficult the act of a prescribing practitioner or patient 

selecting any particular pharmacy or pharmaceutical. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 2006-271. 

456.44Controlled substance prescribing.— 

(1 )DEFINITIONS.— 



(a)"Addiction medicine specialist" means a board-certified psychiatrist with a subspecialty 

certification in addiction medicine or who is eligible for such subspecialty certification in addiction 

medicine, an addiction medicine physician certified or eligible for certification by the American Society 

of Addiction Medicine, or an osteopathic physician who holds a certificate of added qualification in 

Addiction Medicine through the American Osteopathic Association. 

(b)"Adverse incident" means any incident set forth ins. 458.351(4)(a)-(e) or s. 459.026(4)(a)-(e). 

(c)"Board-certified pain management physician" means a physician who possesses board 

certification in pain medicine by the American Board of Pain Medicine, board certification by the 

American Board of Interventional Pain Physicians, or board certification or subcertification in pain 

management or pain medicine by a specialty board recognized by the American Association of Physician 

Specialists or the American Board of Medical Specialties or an osteopathic physician who holds a 

certificate in Pain Management by the American Osteopathic Association. 

(d)"Board eligible" means successful completion of an anesthesia, physical medicine and 

rehabilitation, rheumatology, or neurology residency program approved by the Accreditation Council 

for Graduate Medical Education or the American Osteopathic Association for a period of 6 years from 

successful completion of such residency program. 

(e)"Chronic nonmalignant pain" means pain unrelated to cancer which persists beyond the usual 

course of disease or the injury that is the cause of the pain or more than 90 days after surgery. 

(f)"Mental health addiction facility" means a facility licensed under chapter 394 or chapter 397. 

(2)REGISTRATION.—Effective January 1, 2012, a physician licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, 

chapter 461, or chapter 466 who prescribes any controlled substance, listed in Schedule II, Schedule III, 

or Schedule IV as defined in s. 893.03, for the treatment of chronic nonmalignant pain, must: 

(a)Designate himself or herself as a controlled substance prescribing practitioner on the physician's 

practitioner profile. 

(b)Comply with the requirements of this section and applicable board rules. 

(3)STANDARDS OF PRACTICE.—The standards of practice in this section do not supersede the level 

of care, skill, and treatment recognized in general law related to health care licensure. 

(a)A complete medical history and a physical examination must be conducted before beginning any 

treatment and must be documented in the medical record. The exact components of the physical 

examination shall be left to the judgment of the clinician who is expected to perform a physical 

examination proportionate to the diagnosis that justifies a treatment. The medical record must, at a 

minimum, document the nature and intensity of the pain, current and past treatments for pain, 

underlying or coexisting diseases or conditions, the effect of the pain on physical and psychological 

function, a review of previous medical records, previous diagnostic studies, and history of alcohol and 

substance abuse. The medical record shall also document the presence of one or more recognized 

medical indications for the use of a controlled substance. Each registrant must develop a written plan 

for assessing each patient's risk of aberrant drug-related behavior, which may include patient drug 







American Osteopathic Association and performs interventional pain procedures of the type routinely 

billed using surgical codes. This subsection does not apply to a physician who prescribes medically 

necessary controlled substances for a patient during an inpatient stay in a hospital licensed under 

chapter 395. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 2011-141; s. 31, ch. 2012-160. 

456. 5oRepeated medical malpractice.— 

(1 )For purposes of s. 26, Art. X of the State Constitution and ss. 458.331(1 )(t), (4), and (5) and 

459.01 5(1 )(x), (4), and (5): 

(a)"Board" means the Board of Medicine, in the case of a physician licensed pursuant to chapter 

458, or the Board of Osteopathic Medicine, in the case of an osteopathic physician licensed pursuant to 

chapter 459. 

(b)"Final administrative agency decision" means a final order of the licensing board following a 

hearing as provided in s. 120.57(1) or (2) or s. 120.574 finding that the licensee has violated s. 

458.331(1 )(t) or s. 459.01 5(1 )(x). 

(c)"Found to have committed" means the malpractice has been found in a final judgment of a 

court of law, final administrative agency decision, or decision of binding arbitration. 

(d)"Incident" means the wrongful act or occurrence from which the medical malpractice arises, 

regardless of the number of claimants or findings. For purposes of this section: 

1 .A single act of medical malpractice, regardless of the number of claimants, shall count as only 

one incident. 

2.Multiple findings of medical malpractice arising from the same wrongful act or series of wrongful 

acts associated with the treatment of the same patient shall count as only one incident. 

(e)"Level of care, skill, and treatment recognized in general law related to health care licensure" 

means the standard of care specified in s. 766.102. 

(f)"Medical doctor" means a physician licensed pursuant to chapter 458 or chapter 459. 

(g)"Medical malpractice" means the failure to practice medicine in accordance with the level of 

care, skill, and treatment recognized in general law related to health care licensure. Only for the 

purpose of finding repeated medical malpractice pursuant to this section, any similar wrongful act, 

neglect, or default committed in another state or country which, if committed in this state, would 

have been considered medical malpractice as defined in this paragraph, shall be considered medical 

malpractice if the standard of care and burden of proof applied in the other state or country equaled 

or exceeded that used in this state. 

(h)"Repeated medical malpractice" means three or more incidents of medical malpractice found 

to have been committed by a medical doctor. Only an incident occurring on or after November 2, 2004, 

shall be considered an incident for purposes of finding repeated medical malpractice under this 

section. 



(2)For purposes of implementing s. 26, Art. X of the State Constitution, the board shall not license 

or continue to license a medical doctor found to have committed repeated medical malpractice, the 

finding of which was based upon clear and convincing evidence. In order to rely on an incident of 

medical malpractice to determine whether a license must be denied or revoked under this section, if 

the facts supporting the finding of the incident of medical malpractice were determined on a standard 

less stringent than clear and convincing evidence, the board shall review the record of the case and 

determine whether the finding would be supported under a standard of clear and convincing evidence. 

Section 456.073 applies. The board may verify on a biennial basis an out-of-state licensee's medical 

malpractice history using federal, state, or other databases. The board may require licensees and 

applicants for licensure to provide a copy of the record of the trial of any medical malpractice 

judgment, which may be required to be in an electronic format, involving an incident that occurred on 

or after November 2, 2004. For purposes of implementing s. 26, Art. X of the State Constitution, the 

90-day requirement for granting or denying a complete allopathic or osteopathic licensure application 

ins. 120.60(1) is extended to 180 days. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 2005-266 



2012 Florida Statutes 

Chapter 499 

499.00 1 Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act; short title. 
499.002 Purpose, administration, and enforcement of and exemption from this 
part. 
499.003 Definitions of terms used in this part. 
499.005 Prohibited acts. 
499.0051 Criminal acts. 
499.0054 Advertising and labeling of drugs, devices, and cosmetics; exemptions. 
499.006 Adulterated drug or device. 
499.007 Misbranded drug or device. 
499.008 Adulterated cosmetics. 
499.009 Misbranded cosmetics. 
499.01 Permits. 
499.012 Permit application requirements. 
499.01201 Agency for Health Care Administration review and use of statute and 
rule violation or compliance data. 
499.0121 Storage and handling of prescription drugs; recordkeeping. 
499.01211 Drug Wholesale Distributor Advisory Council. 
499.01212 Pedigree paper. 
499.015 Registration of drugs, devices, and cosmetics; issuance of certificates of 
free sale. 
499.023 New drugs; sale, manufacture, repackaging, distribution. 
499.024 Drug product classification. 
499.025 Drug products in finished, solid, oral dosage form; identification 
requirements. 
499.028 Drug samples or complimentary drugs; starter packs; permits to 
distribute. 
499.029 Cancer Drug Donation Program. 
499.03 Possession of certain drugs without prescriptions unlawful; exemptions and 
exceptions. 
499.032 Phenylalanine; prescription required. 
499.033 Ephedrine; prescription required. 
499.035 Dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO); labeling and advertising. 
499.039 Sale, distribution, or transfer of harmful chemical substances; penalties; 
authority for enforcement. 
499.04 Fee authority. 
499.041 Schedule of fees for drug, device, and cosmetic applications and permits, 
product registrations, and free-sale certificates. 
499.05 Rules. 
499.051 Inspections and investigations. 
499.052 Records of interstate shipment. 
499.055 Reports and dissemination of information by department. 
499.057 Expenses and salaries. 
499.06 Embargoing, detaining, or destroying article or processing equipment which 
is in violation of law or rule. 
499.062 Seizure and condemnation of drugs, devices, or cosmetics. 
499.065 Inspections; imminent danger. 
499.066 Penalties; remedies. 
499.0661 Cease and desist orders; removal of certain persons. 



499.067 Denial, suspension, or revocation of permit, certification, or registration. 
499.001 Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act; short title.—Sections 499.001-499.081 
may be cited as the "Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act." 

History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 1, ch. 86-133; ss. 1, 52, ch. 92-69. 
499.Oo2Purpose, administration, and enforcement of and exemption from this 

part. — 

(1)This part is intended to: 
(a)Safeguard the public health and promote the public welfare by protecting the 

public from injury by product use and by merchandising deceit involving drugs, 
devices, and cosmetics. 

(b)Provide uniform legislation to be administered so far as practicable in 
conformity with the provisions of, and regulations issued under the authority of, the 
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and that portion of the Federal Trade 
Commission Act which expressly prohibits the false advertisement of drugs, devices, 
and cosmetics. 

(c)Promote thereby uniformity of such state and federal laws, and their 
administration and enforcement, throughout the United States. 

(2)The department shall administer and enforce this part to prevent fraud, 
adulteration, misbranding, or false advertising in the preparation, manufacture, 
repackaging, or distribution of drugs, devices, and cosmetics. 

(3)For the purpose of any investigation or proceeding conducted by the 
department under this part, the department may administer oaths, take depositions, 
issue and serve subpoenas, and compel the attendance of witnesses and the 
production of books, papers, documents, or other evidence. The department shall 
exercise this power on its own initiative. Challenges to, and enforcement of, the 
subpoenas and orders shall be handled as provided in s. 120.569. 

(4)Each state attorney, county attorney, or municipal attorney to whom the 
department or its designated agent reports any violation of this part shall cause 
appropriate proceedings to be instituted in the proper courts without delay and to be 
prosecuted in the manner required by law. 

(5)This part does not require the department to report, for the institution of 
proceedings under this part, minor violations of this part when it believes that the 
public interest will be adequately served in the circumstances by a suitable written 
notice or warning. 

(6)Common carriers engaged in interstate commerce are not subject to this part if 
they are engaged in the usual course of business as common carriers. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 2, 3, ch. 86-133; S. 2, ch. 87-50; 
ss. 2, 4, 6, 48, 49, 50, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 240, ch. 96-410; s. 236, ch. 99-8; s. 1, ch. 
2008-207. 
Note.—Subsection (2) former s. 499.004; subsection (3) former s. 499.0053; 
subsection (4) former s. 499.07; subsection (5) former s. 499.071; subsection (6) 
former s. 499.081. 

499.OO3Definitions of terms used in this part—As used in this part, the term: 
(1)"Advertisement" means any representation disseminated in any manner or by 

any means, other than by labeling, for the purpose of inducing, or which is likely to 
induce, directly or indirectly, the purchase of drugs, devices, or cosmetics. 

(2)"Affiliated group" means an affiliated group as defined by s. 1504 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, which is composed of chain drug entities, 
including at least 50 retail pharmacies, warehouses, or repackagers, which are 
members of the same affiliated group. The affiliated group must disclose the names 
of all its members to the department. 

(3)"Affiliated party" means: 



(a)A director, officer, trustee, partner, or committee member of a permittee or 
applicant or a subsidiary or service corporation of the permittee or applicant; 

(b)A person who, directly or indirectly, manages, controls, or oversees the 
operation of a permittee or applicant, regardless of whether such person is a partner, 
shareholder, manager, member, officer, director, independent contractor, or 
employee of the permittee or applicant; 

(c)A person who has filed or is required to file a personal information statement 
pursuant to s. 499.012(9) or is required to be identified in an application for a permit 
or to renew a permit pursuant to s. 499.012(8); or 

(d)The five largest natural shareholders that own at least 5 percent of the 
permittee or applicant. 

(4)"Applicant" means a person applying for a permit or certification under this part. 
(5)"Authenticate" means to affirmatively verify upon receipt of a prescription drug 

that each transaction listed on the pedigree paper has occurred. 
(a)A wholesale distributor is not required to open a sealed, medical convenience kit 

to authenticate a pedigree paper for a prescription drug contained within the kit. 
(b)Authentication of a prescription drug included in a sealed, medical convenience 

kit shall be limited to verifying the transaction and pedigree information received. 
(6)"Certificate of free sale" means a document prepared by the department which 

certifies a drug, device, or cosmetic, that is registered with the department, as one 
that can be legally sold in the state. 

(7)"Chain pharmacy warehouse" means a wholesale distributor permitted pursuant 
to s. 499.01 that maintains a physical location for prescription drugs that functions 
solely as a central warehouse to perform intracompany transfers of such drugs to a 

member of its affiliated group. 
(8)"Closed pharmacy" means a pharmacy that is licensed under chapter 465 and 

purchases prescription drugs for use by a limited patient population and not for 
wholesale distribution or sale to the public. The term does not include retail 
pharmacies. 

(9)"Color" includes black, white, and intermediate grays. 
(10)"Color additive" means, with the exception of any material that has been or 

hereafter is exempt under the federal act, a material that: 
(a)Is a dye pigment, or other substance, made by a process of synthesis or similar 

artifice, or extracted, isolated, or otherwise derived, with or without intermediate or 
final change of identity from a vegetable, animal, mineral, or other source; or 

(b)When added or applied to a drug or cosmetic or to the human body, or any part 
thereof, is capable alone, or through reaction with other substances, of imparting 
color thereto. 

(11)"Compressed medical gas" means any liquefied or vaporized gas that is a 

prescription drug, whether it is alone or in combination with other gases. 
(12)"Contraband prescription drug" means any adulterated drug, as defined in s. 

499.006, any counterfeit drug, as defined in this section, and also means any 
prescription drug for which a pedigree paper does not exist, or for which the 
pedigree paper in existence has been forged, counterfeited, falsely created, or 
contains any altered, false, or misrepresented matter. 

(13)"Cosmetic" means an article, with the exception of soap, that is: 
(a)Intended to be rubbed, poured, sprinkled, or sprayed on; introduced into; or 

otherwise applied to the human body or any part thereof for cleansing, beautifying, 
promoting attractiveness, or altering the appearance; or 

(b)Intended for use as a component of any such article. 
(14)"Counterfeit drug," "counterfeit device," or "counterfeit cosmetic" means a 

drug, device, or cosmetic which, or the container, seal, or labeling of which, without 
authorization, bears the trademark, trade name, or other identifying mark, imprint, 



or device, or any likeness thereof, of a drug, device, or cosmetic manufacturer, 
processor, packer, or distributor other than the person that in fact manufactured, 
processed, packed, or distributed that drug, device, or cosmetic and which thereby 
falsely purports or is represented to be the product of, or to have been packed or 
distributed by, that other drug, device, or cosmetic manufacturer, processor, packer, 
or distributor. 

(15)"Department" means the Department of Business and Professional Regulation. 
(16)"Device" means any instrument, apparatus, implement, machine, contrivance, 

implant, in vitro reagent, or other similar or related article, including its components, 
parts, or accessories, which is: 

(a)Recognized in the current edition of the United States Pharmacopoeia and 
National Formulary, or any supplement thereof, 

(b)Intended for use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, therapy, or 
prevention of disease in humans or other animals, or 

(c)Intended to affect the structure or any function of the body of humans or other 
animals, 

and that does not achieve any of its principal intended purposes through chemical action within 
or on the body of humans or other animals and which is not dependent upon being metabolized 
for the achievement of any of its principal intended purposes. 

(17)"Distribute" or "distribution" means to sell; offer to sell; give away; transfer, 
whether by passage of title, physical movement, or both; deliver; or offer to deliver. 
The term does not mean to administer or dispense and does not include the billing 
and invoicing activities that commonly follow a wholesale distribution transaction. 

(18)"Drop shipment" means the sale of a prescription drug from a manufacturer to 
a wholesale distributor, where the wholesale distributor takes title to, but not 
possession of, the prescription drug, and the manufacturer of the prescription drug 
ships the prescription drug directly to a chain pharmacy warehouse or a person 
authorized by law to purchase prescription drugs for the purpose of administering or 
dispensing the drug, as defined in s. 465.003. 

(19)"Drug" means an article that is: 
(a)Recognized in the current edition of the United States Pharmacopoeia and 

National Formulary, official Homeopathic Pharmacopoeia of the United States, or any 
supplement to any of those publications; 

(b)Intended for use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, therapy, or 
prevention of disease in humans or other animals; 

(c)Intended to affect the structure or any function of the body of humans or other 
animals; or 

(d)Intended for use as a component of any article specified in paragraph (a), 
paragraph (b), or paragraph (c), and includes active pharmaceutical ingredients, but 
does not include devices or their nondrug components, parts, or accessories. For 
purposes of this paragraph, an "active pharmaceutical ingredient" includes any 
substance or mixture of substances intended, represented, or labeled for use in drug 
manufacturing that furnishes or is intended to furnish, in a finished dosage form, any 
pharmacological activity or other direct effect in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, 
treatment, therapy, or prevention of disease in humans or other animals, or to affect 
the structure or any function of the body of humans or other animals. 

(20)"Establishment" means a place of business which is at one general physical 
location and may extend to one or more contiguous suites, units, floors, or buildings 
operated and controlled exclusively by entities under common operation and control. 
Where multiple buildings are under common exclusive ownership, operation, and 
control, an intervening thoroughfare does not affect the contiguous nature of the 



buildings. For purposes of permitting, each suite, unit, floor, or building must be 
identified in the most recent permit application. 

(21)"Federal act" means the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. ss. 
301 et seq.; 52 Stat. 1040 et seq. 

(22)"Freight forwarder" means a person who receives prescription drugs which are 
owned by another person and designated by that person for export, and exports 
those prescription drugs. 

(23)"Health care entity" means a closed pharmacy or any person, organization, or 
business entity that provides diagnostic, medical, surgical, or dental treatment or 
care, or chronic or rehabilitative care, but does not include any wholesale distributor 
or retail pharmacy licensed under state law to deal in prescription drugs. However, a 

blood establishment is a health care entity that may engage in the wholesale 
distribution of prescription drugs under s. 499.01(2)(g)1.c. 

(24)"Health care facility" means a health care facility licensed under chapter 395. 
(25)"Hospice" means a corporation licensed under part IV of chapter 400. 
(26)"Hospital" means a facility as defined in s. 395.002 and licensed under chapter 

395. 
(27)"Immediate container" does not include package liners. 
(28)"Label" means a display of written, printed, or graphic matter upon the 

immediate container of any drug, device, or cosmetic. A requirement made by or 
under authority of this part or rules adopted under this part that any word, 
statement, or other information appear on the label is not complied with unless such 
word, statement, or other information also appears on the outside container or 
wrapper, if any, of the retail package of such drug, device, or cosmetic or is easily 
legible through the outside container or wrapper. 

(29)"Labeling" means all labels and other written, printed, or graphic matters: 
(a)Upon a drug, device, or cosmetic, or any of its containers or wrappers; or 
(b)Accompanying or related to such drug, device, or cosmetic. 
(30)"Manufacture" means the preparation, deriving, compounding, propagation, 

processing, producing, or fabrication of any drug, device, or cosmetic. 
(31)"Manufacturer" means: 
(a)A person who prepares, derives, manufactures, or produces a drug, device, or 

cosmetic; 
(b)The holder or holders of a New Drug Application (NDA), an Abbreviated New 

Drug Application (ANDA), a Biologics License Application (BLA), or a New Animal 
Drug Application (NADA), provided such application has become effective or is 
otherwise approved consistent with s. 499.023; 

(c)A private label distributor for whom the private label distributor's prescription 
drugs are originally manufactured and labeled for the distributor and have not been 
repackaged; 

(d)A person registered under the federal act as a manufacturer of a prescription 
drug, who is described in paragraph (a), paragraph (b), or paragraph (c), who has 
entered into a written agreement with another prescription drug manufacturer that 
authorizes either manufacturer to distribute the prescription drug identified in the 
agreement as the manufacturer of that drug consistent with the federal act and its 
implementing regulations; 

(e)A member of an affiliated group that includes, but is not limited to, persons 
described in paragraph (a), paragraph (b), paragraph (c), or paragraph (d), which 
member distributes prescription drugs, whether or not obtaining title to the drugs, 
only for the manufacturer of the drugs who is also a member of the affiliated group. 
As used in this paragraph, the term "affiliated group" means an affiliated group as 
defined in s. 1504 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The 



manufacturer must disclose the names of all of its affiliated group members to the 
department; or 

(f)A person permitted as a third party logistics provider, only while providing 
warehousing, distribution, or other logistics services on behalf of a person described 
in paragraph (a), paragraph (b), paragraph (c), paragraph (d), or paragraph (e). 

The term does not include a pharmacy that is operating in compliance with pharmacy practice 
standards as defined in chapter 465 and rules adopted under that chapter. 

(32)"Medical convenience kit" means packages or units that contain combination 
products as defined in 21 C.F.R. s. 3.2(e)(2). 

(33)"New drug" means: 
(a)Any drug the composition of which is such that the drug is not generally 

recognized, among experts qualified by scientific training and experience to evaluate 
the safety and effectiveness of drugs, as safe and effective for use under the 
conditions prescribed, recommended, or suggested in the labeling of that drug; or 

(b)Any drug the composition of which is such that the drug, as a result of 
investigations to determine its safety and effectiveness for use under certain 
conditions, has been recognized for use under such conditions, but which drug has 
not, other than in those investigations, been used to a material extent or for a 

material time under such conditions. 
(34)"Normal distribution chain" means a wholesale distribution of a prescription 

drug in which the wholesale distributor or its wholly owned subsidiary purchases and 
receives the specific unit of the prescription drug directly from the manufacturer and 
distributes the prescription drug directly, or through up to two intracompany 
transfers, to a chain pharmacy warehouse or a person authorized by law to purchase 
prescription drugs for the purpose of administering or dispensing the drug, as 
defined in s. 465.003. For purposes of this subsection, the term "intracompany" 
means any transaction or transfer between any parent, division, or subsidiary wholly 
owned by a corporate entity. 

(35)"Nursing home" means a facility licensed under part II of chapter 400. 
(36)"Official compendium" means the current edition of the official United States 

Pharmacopoeia and National Formulary, or any supplement thereto. 
(37)"Pedigree paper" means a document in written or electronic form approved by 

the department which contains information required by s. 499.01212 regarding the 
sale and distribution of any given prescription drug. 

(38)"Permittee" means any person holding a permit issued pursuant to s. 499.012. 
(39)"Person" means any individual, child, joint venture, syndicate, fiduciary, 

partnership, corporation, division of a corporation, firm, trust, business trust, 
company, estate, public or private institution, association, organization, group, city, 
county, city and county, political subdivision of this state, other governmental 
agency within this state, and any representative, agent, or agency of any of the 
foregoing, or any other group or combination of the foregoing. 

(40)"Pharmacist" means a person licensed under chapter 465. 
(41)"Pharmacy" means an entity licensed under chapter 465. 
(42)"Prepackaged drug product" means a drug that originally was in finished 

packaged form sealed by a manufacturer and that is placed in a properly labeled 
container by a pharmacy or practitioner authorized to dispense pursuant to chapter 
465 for the purpose of dispensing in the establishment in which the prepackaging 
occurred. 

(43)"Prescription drug" means a prescription, medicinal, or legend drug, including, 
but not limited to, finished dosage forms or active pharmaceutical ingredients subject 
to, defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act 



or s. 465.003(8), s. 499.007(13), or subsection (11), subsection (46), or subsection 
(53), except that an active pharmaceutical ingredient is a prescription drug only if 
substantially all finished dosage forms in which it may be lawfully dispensed or 
administered in this state are also prescription drugs. 

(44)"Prescription drug label" means any display of written, printed, or graphic 
matter upon the immediate container of any prescription drug prior to its dispensing 
to an individual patient pursuant to a prescription of a practitioner authorized by law 
to prescribe. 

(45)"Prescription label" means any display of written, printed, or graphic matter 
upon the immediate container of any prescription drug dispensed pursuant to a 

prescription of a practitioner authorized by law to prescribe. 
(46)"Prescription medical oxygen" means oxygen USP which is a drug that can only 

be sold on the order or prescription of a practitioner authorized by law to prescribe. 
The label of prescription medical oxygen must comply with current labeling 
requirements for oxygen under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. 

(47)"Primary wholesale distributor" means any wholesale distributor that: 
(a)Purchased 90 percent or more of the total dollar volume of its purchases of 

prescription drugs directly from manufacturers in the previous year; and 
(b)1.Directly purchased prescription drugs from not fewer than 50 different 

prescription drug manufacturers in the previous year; or 
2.Has, or the affiliated group, as defined in s. 1504 of the Internal Revenue Code, 

of which the wholesale distributor is a member has, not fewer than 250 employees. 
(c)For purposes of this subsection, "directly from manufacturers" means: 
1.Purchases made by the wholesale distributor directly from the manufacturer of 

prescription drugs; and 
2.Transfers from a member of an affiliated group, as defined in s. 1504 of the 

Internal Revenue Code, of which the wholesale distributor is a member, if: 
a.The affiliated group purchases 90 percent or more of the total dollar volume of 

its purchases of prescription drugs from the manufacturer in the previous year; and 
b.The wholesale distributor discloses to the department the names of all members 

of the affiliated group of which the wholesale distributor is a member and the 
affiliated group agrees in writing to provide records on prescription drug purchases 
by the members of the affiliated group not later than 48 hours after the department 
requests access to such records, regardless of the location where the records are 
stored. 

(48)"Proprietary drug," or "OTC drug," means a patent or over-the-counter drug in 
its unbroken, original package, which drug is sold to the public by, or under the 
authority of, the manufacturer or primary distributor thereof, is not misbranded 
under the provisions of this part, and can be purchased without a prescription. 

(49)"Repackage" includes repacking or otherwise changing the container, wrapper, 
or labeling to further the distribution of the drug, device, or cosmetic. 

(50)"Repackager" means a person who repackages. The term excludes pharmacies 
that are operating in compliance with pharmacy practice standards as defined in 
chapter 465 and rules adopted under that chapter. 

(51)"Retail pharmacy" means a community pharmacy licensed under chapter 465 
that purchases prescription drugs at fair market prices and provides prescription 
services to the public. 

(52)"Secondary wholesale distributor" means a wholesale distributor that is not a 

primary wholesale distributor. 
(53)"Veterinary prescription drug" means a prescription drug intended solely for 

veterinary use. The label of the drug must bear the statement, "Caution: Federal law 
restricts this drug to sale by or on the order of a licensed veterinarian." 



(54)"Wholesale distribution" means distribution of prescription drugs to persons 
other than a consumer or patient, but does not include: 

(a)Any of the following activities, which is not a violation of s. 499.005(21) if such 
activity is conducted in accordance with s. 499.01(2)(g): 

1.The purchase or other acquisition by a hospital or other health care entity that is 
a member of a group purchasing organization of a prescription drug for its own use 
from the group purchasing organization or from other hospitals or health care 
entities that are members of that organization. 

2.The sale, purchase, or trade of a prescription drug or an offer to sell, purchase, 
or trade a prescription drug by a charitable organization described in s. 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and revised, to a nonprofit affiliate 
of the organization to the extent otherwise permitted by law. 

3.The sale, purchase, or trade of a prescription drug or an offer to sell, purchase, 
or trade a prescription drug among hospitals or other health care entities that are 
under common control. For purposes of this subparagraph, "common control" means 
the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a 

person or an organization, whether by ownership of stock, by voting rights, by 
contract, or otherwise. 

4.The sale, purchase, trade, or other transfer of a prescription drug from or for any 
federal, state, or local government agency or any entity eligible to purchase 
prescription drugs at public health services prices pursuant to Pub. L. No. 102-585, 
s. 602 to a contract provider or its subcontractor for eligible patients of the agency or 
entity under the following conditions: 

a.The agency or entity must obtain written authorization for the sale, purchase, 
trade, or other transfer of a prescription drug under this subparagraph from the 
Secretary of Business and Professional Regulation or his or her designee. 

b.The contract provider or subcontractor must be authorized by law to administer 
or dispense prescription drugs. 

c.In the case of a subcontractor, the agency or entity must be a party to and 
execute the subcontract. 

d.The contract provider and subcontractor must maintain and produce immediately 
for inspection all records of movement or transfer of all the prescription drugs 
belonging to the agency or entity, including, but not limited to, the records of receipt 
and disposition of prescription drugs. Each contractor and subcontractor dispensing 
or administering these drugs must maintain and produce records documenting the 
dispensing or administration. Records that are required to be maintained include, but 
are not limited to, a perpetual inventory itemizing drugs received and drugs 
dispensed by prescription number or administered by patient identifier, which must 
be submitted to the agency or entity quarterly. 

e.The contract provider or subcontractor may administer or dispense the 
prescription drugs only to the eligible patients of the agency or entity or must return 
the prescription drugs for or to the agency or entity. The contract provider or 
subcontractor must require proof from each person seeking to fill a prescription or 
obtain treatment that the person is an eligible patient of the agency or entity and 
must, at a minimum, maintain a copy of this proof as part of the records of the 
contractor or subcontractor required under sub-subparagraph d. 

f.m addition to the departmental inspection authority set forth in s. 499.05 1, the 
establishment of the contract provider and subcontractor and all records pertaining 
to prescription drugs subject to this subparagraph shall be subject to inspection by 
the agency or entity. All records relating to prescription drugs of a manufacturer 
under this subparagraph shall be subject to audit by the manufacturer of those 
drugs, without identifying individual patient information. 



(b)Any of the following activities, which is not a violation of s. 499.005(21) if such 
activity is conducted in accordance with rules established by the department: 

1.The sale, purchase, or trade of a prescription drug among federal, state, or local 
government health care entities that are under common control and are authorized 
to purchase such prescription drug. 

2.The sale, purchase, or trade of a prescription drug or an offer to sell, purchase, 
or trade a prescription drug for emergency medical reasons. For purposes of this 
subparagraph, the term "emergency medical reasons" includes transfers of 
prescription drugs by a retail pharmacy to another retail pharmacy to alleviate a 

temporary shortage. 
3.The transfer of a prescription drug acquired by a medical director on behalf of a 

licensed emergency medical services provider to that emergency medical services 
provider and its transport vehicles for use in accordance with the provider's license 
under chapter 401. 

4.The revocation of a sale or the return of a prescription drug to the person's 
prescription drug wholesale supplier. 

5.The donation of a prescription drug by a health care entity to a charitable 
organization that has been granted an exemption under s. 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and that is authorized to possess prescription 
drugs. 

6.The transfer of a prescription drug by a person authorized to purchase or receive 
prescription drugs to a person licensed or permitted to handle reverse distributions 
or destruction under the laws of the jurisdiction in which the person handling the 
reverse distribution or destruction receives the drug. 

7.The transfer of a prescription drug by a hospital or other health care entity to a 

person licensed under this part to repackage prescription drugs for the purpose of 
repackaging the prescription drug for use by that hospital, or other health care entity 
and other health care entities that are under common control, if ownership of the 
prescription drugs remains with the hospital or other health care entity at all times. 
In addition to the recordkeeping requirements of s. 499.0121(6), the hospital or 
health care entity that transfers prescription drugs pursuant to this subparagraph 
must reconcile all drugs transferred and returned and resolve any discrepancies in a 

timely manner. 
(c)The distribution of prescription drug samples by manufacturers' representatives 

or distributors' representatives conducted in accordance with s. 499.028. 
(d)The sale, purchase, or trade of blood and blood components intended for 

transfusion. As used in this paragraph, the term "blood" means whole blood collected 
from a single donor and processed for transfusion or further manufacturing, and the 
term "blood components" means that part of the blood separated by physical or 
mechanical means. 

(e)The lawful dispensing of a prescription drug in accordance with chapter 465. 
(f)The sale, purchase, or trade of a prescription drug between pharmacies as a 

result of a sale, transfer, merger, or consolidation of all or part of the business of the 
pharmacies from or with another pharmacy, whether accomplished as a purchase 
and sale of stock or of business assets. 

(55)"Wholesale distributor" means any person engaged in wholesale distribution of 
prescription drugs in or into this state, including, but not limited to, manufacturers; 
repackagers; own-label distributors; jobbers; private-label distributors; brokers; 
warehouses, including manufacturers' and distributors' warehouses, chain drug 
warehouses, and wholesale drug warehouses; independent wholesale drug traders; 
exporters; retail pharmacies; and the agents thereof that conduct wholesale 
distributions. 



History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 105, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; S. 1, ch. 84-115; 
s. 1, ch. 87-57; s. 3, ch. 88-159; ss. 3, 15, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 584, ch. 97-103; s. 31, 
ch. 98-151; s. 235, ch. 99-8; ss. 124, 172, ch. 99-397; s. 34, ch. 2000-242; s. 10, 
ch. 2000-326; s. 38, ch. 2002-400; ss. 3, 13, 14, 25, ch. 2003-155; s. 1, ch. 2004- 
328; ss. 1, 2, ch. 2005-248; ss. 1, 3, ch. 2006-310; s. 122, ch. 2007-5; s. 20, ch. 
2007-6; s. 104, ch. 2008-6; s. 2, ch. 2008-207; s. 60, ch. 2009-21; s. 1, ch. 2009- 
221; s. 22, ch. 2010-161; s. 2, ch. 2012-37; s. 33, ch. 2012-61; s. 3, ch. 2012-143; 
s. 122, ch. 2012-184. 
Note.—Subsection (24) former s. 499.029(3)(f); subsection (25) former s. 
499.029(3)(h); subsection (26) former s. 499.029(3)(i); subsection (34) former s. 
499.029(3)(j); subsection (37) former s. 499.0661(1); subsection (39) former s. 
499.029(3)(l); subsection (40) former s. 499.029(3)(m); subsection (46) intro., 
paragraphs (a), (b) former s. 499.012(1)(d); paragraph (46)(c) former s. 
499.012(1)(e); subsection (50) former s. 499.012(1)(c); subsection (51) former s. 
499.012(1)(f); subsection (53) former s. 499.012(1)(a); subsection (54) former s. 
499.012(1)(b). 

499.O05Prohibited acts.—It is unlawful for a person to perform or cause the 
performance of any of the following acts in this state: 

(1)The manufacture, repackaging, sale, delivery, or holding or offering for sale of 
any drug, device, or cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded or has otherwise 
been rendered unfit for human or animal use. 

(2)The adulteration or misbranding of any drug, device, or cosmetic. 
(3)The receipt of any drug, device, or cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded, 

and the delivery or proffered delivery of such drug, device, or cosmetic, for pay or 
otherwise. 

(4)The sale, distribution, purchase, trade, holding, or offering of any drug, device, 
or cosmetic in violation of this part. 

(5)The dissemination of any false or misleading advertisement of a drug, device, or 
cosmetic. 

(6)The refusal or constructive refusal: 
(a)To allow the department to enter or inspect an establishment in which drugs, 

devices, or cosmetics are manufactured, processed, repackaged, sold, brokered, or 
held; 

(b)To allow inspection of any record of that establishment; 
(c)To allow the department to enter and inspect any vehicle that is being used to 

transport drugs, devices, or cosmetics; or 
(d)To allow the department to take samples of any drug, device, or cosmetic. 
(7)The purchase or sale of prescription drugs for wholesale distribution in 

exchange for currency, as defined in s. 560.103. 
(8)Committing any act that causes a drug, device, or cosmetic to be a counterfeit 

drug, device, or cosmetic; or selling, dispensing, or holding for sale a counterfeit 
drug, device, or cosmetic. 

(9)The alteration, mutilation, destruction, obliteration, or removal of the whole or 
any part of the labeling of a drug, device, or cosmetic, or the doing of any other act 
with respect to a drug, device, or cosmetic, if the act is done while the drug, device, 
or cosmetic is held for sale and the act results in the drug, device, or cosmetic being 
misbranded. 

(10)Forging; counterfeiting; simulating; falsely representing any drug, device, or 
cosmetic; or, without the authority of the manufacturer, using any mark, stamp, tag, 
label, or other identification device authorized or required by rules adopted under 
this part. 



(11)The use, on the labeling of any drug or in any advertisement relating to such 
drug, of any representation or suggestion that an application of the drug is effective 
when it is not or that the drug complies with this part when it does not. 

(12)The possession of any drug in violation of this part. 
(13)The sale, delivery, holding, or offering for sale of any self-testing kits designed 

to tell persons their status concerning human immunodeficiency virus or acquired 
immune deficiency syndrome or related disorders or conditions. This prohibition shall 
not apply to home access HIV test kits approved for distribution and sale by the 
United States Food and Drug Administration. 

(14)The purchase or receipt of a prescription drug from a person that is not 
authorized under this chapter to distribute prescription drugs to that purchaser or 
recipient. 

(15)The sale or transfer of a prescription drug to a person that is not authorized 
under the law of the jurisdiction in which the person receives the drug to purchase or 
possess prescription drugs from the person selling or transferring the prescription 
drug. 

(16)The purchase or receipt of a compressed medical gas from a person that is not 
authorized under this chapter to distribute compressed medical gases. 

(17)The sale, purchase, or trade, or the offer to sell, purchase, or trade, a drug 
sample as defined in s. 499.028; the distribution of a drug sample in violation of s. 
499.028; or the failure to otherwise comply with s. 499.028. 

(18)Failure to maintain records as required by this part and rules adopted under 
this part. 

(19)Providing the department with false or fraudulent records, or making false or 
fraudulent statements, regarding any matter within the provisions of this part. 

(20)The importation of a prescription drug except as provided by s. 801(d) of the 
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. 

(21)The wholesale distribution of any prescription drug that was: 
(a)Purchased by a public or private hospital or other health care entity; or 
(b)Donated or supplied at a reduced price to a charitable organization, 

unless the wholesale distribution of the prescription drug is authorized in s. 499.01 (2)(g)1 .c. 

(22)Failure to obtain a permit or registration, or operating without a valid permit 
when a permit or registration is required by this part for that activity. 

(23)Obtaining or attempting to obtain a prescription drug or device by fraud, 
deceit, misrepresentation or subterfuge, or engaging in misrepresentation or fraud in 
the distribution of a drug or device. 

(24)The distribution of a prescription device to the patient or ultimate consumer 
without a prescription or order from a practitioner licensed by law to use or prescribe 
the device. 

(25)Charging a dispensing fee for dispensing, administering, or distributing a 

prescription drug sample. 
(26)Removing a pharmacy's dispensing label from a dispensed prescription drug 

with the intent to further distribute the prescription drug. 
(27)Distributing a prescription drug that was previously dispensed by a licensed 

pharmacy, unless such distribution was authorized in chapter 465 or the rules 
adopted under chapter 465. 

(28)Failure to acquire or deliver a pedigree paper as required under this part. 
(29)The receipt of a prescription drug pursuant to a wholesale distribution without 

having previously received or simultaneously receiving a pedigree paper that was 
attested to as accurate and complete by the wholesale distributor as required under 
this part. 



History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 106, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; S. 24, ch. 88-380; 
ss. 5, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 3, ch. 95-308; s. 585, ch. 97-103; s. 29, ch. 98-151; s. 37, 
ch. 99-397; s. 35, ch. 2000-242; s. 17, ch. 2001-63; s. 32, ch. 2001-89; s. 4, ch. 
2003-155; s. 4, ch. 2006-310; s. 21, ch. 2007-6; s. 48, ch. 2008-177; s. 3, ch. 
2008-207; s. 3, ch. 2012-37. 

499.OO5lCriminal acts.— 
(1)FAILURE TO MAINTAIN OR DELIVER PEDIGREE PAPERS.— 
(a)A person, other than a manufacturer, engaged in the wholesale distribution of 

prescription drugs who fails to deliver to another person complete and accurate 
pedigree papers concerning a prescription drug or contraband prescription drug prior 
to, or simultaneous with, the transfer of the prescription drug or contraband 
prescription drug to another person commits a felony of the third degree, punishable 
as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(b)A person engaged in the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs who fails to 
acquire complete and accurate pedigree papers concerning a prescription drug or 
contraband prescription drug prior to, or simultaneous with, the receipt of the 
prescription drug or contraband prescription drug from another person commits a 

felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 
775.084. 

(c)Any person who knowingly destroys, alters, conceals, or fails to maintain 
complete and accurate pedigree papers concerning any prescription drug or 
contraband prescription drug in his or her possession commits a felony of the third 
degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(2)FAILURE TO AUTHENTICATE PEDIGREE PAPERS.—Effective July 1, 2006: 
(a)A person engaged in the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs who is in 

possession of pedigree papers concerning prescription drugs or contraband 
prescription drugs and who fails to authenticate the matters contained in the 
pedigree papers and who nevertheless attempts to further distribute prescription 
drugs or contraband prescription drugs commits a felony of the third degree, 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(b)A person in possession of pedigree papers concerning prescription drugs or 
contraband prescription drugs who falsely swears or certifies that he or she has 
authenticated the matters contained in the pedigree papers commits a felony of the 
third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)KNOWING FORGERY OF PEDIGREE PAPERS.—A person who knowingly forges, 
counterfeits, or falsely creates any pedigree paper; who falsely represents any 
factual matter contained on any pedigree paper; or who knowingly omits to record 
material information required to be recorded in a pedigree paper, commits a felony 
of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 
775.084. 

(4)KNOWING PURCHASE OR RECEIPT OF PRESCRIPTION DRUG FROM 
UNAUTHORIZED PERSON.—A person who knowingly purchases or receives from a 

person not authorized to distribute prescription drugs under this chapter a 

prescription drug in a wholesale distribution transaction commits a felony of the 
second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(5)KNOWING SALE OR TRANSFER OF PRESCRIPTION DRUG TO UNAUTHORIZED 
PERSON.—A person who knowingly sells or transfers to a person not authorized to 
purchase or possess prescription drugs, under the law of the jurisdiction in which the 
person receives the drug, a prescription drug in a wholesale distribution transaction 
commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 
775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(6)KNOWING SALE OR DELIVERY, OR POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO SELL, 
CONTRABAND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS.—A person who is knowingly in actual or 



constructive possession of any amount of contraband prescription drugs, who 
knowingly sells or delivers, or who possesses with intent to sell or deliver any 
amount of contraband prescription drugs, commits a felony of the second degree, 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(7)KNOWING TRAFFICKING IN CONTRABAND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS.—A person 
who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this state, or 
who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of any amount of contraband 
prescription drugs valued at $25,000 or more commits a felony of the first degree, 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(a)Upon conviction, each defendant shall be ordered to pay a mandatory fine 
according to the following schedule: 

1.If the value of contraband prescription drugs involved is $25,000 or more, but 
less than $100,000, the defendant shall pay a mandatory fine of $25,000. If the 
defendant is a corporation or other person that is not a natural person, it shall pay a 

mandatory fine of $75,000. 
2.If the value of contraband prescription drugs involved is $100,000 or more, but 

less than $250,000, the defendant shall pay a mandatory fine of $100,000. If the 
defendant is a corporation or other person that is not a natural person, it shall pay a 

mandatory fine of $300,000. 
3.If the value of contraband prescription drugs involved is $250,000 or more, the 

defendant shall pay a mandatory fine of $200,000. If the defendant is a corporation 
or other person that is not a natural person, it shall pay a mandatory fine of 
$600,000. 

(b)As used in this subsection, the term "value" means the market value of the 
property at the time and place of the offense or, if such cannot be satisfactorily 
ascertained, the cost of replacement of the property within a reasonable time after 
the offense. Amounts of value of separate contraband prescription drugs involved in 
distinct transactions for the distribution of the contraband prescription drugs 
committed pursuant to one scheme or course of conduct, whether involving the 
same person or several persons, may be aggregated in determining the punishment 
of the offense. 

(8)KNOWING FORGERY OF PRESCRIPTION OR PRESCRIPTION DRUG LABELS.—A 
person who knowingly forges, counterfeits, or falsely creates any prescription label 
or prescription drug label, or who falsely represents any factual matter contained on 
any prescription label or prescription drug label, commits a felony of the first degree, 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(9)KNOWING SALE OR PURCHASE OF CONTRABAND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS 
RESULTING IN GREAT BODILY HARM.—A person who knowingly sells, purchases, 
manufactures, delivers, or brings into this state, or who is knowingly in actual or 
constructive possession of any amount of contraband prescription drugs, and whose 
acts in violation of this subsection result in great bodily harm to a person, commits a 

felony of the first degree, as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 
(10)KNOWING SALE OR PURCHASE OF CONTRABAND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS 

RESULTING IN DEATH.—A person who knowingly manufactures, sells, purchases, 
delivers, or brings into this state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive 
possession of any amount of contraband prescription drugs, and whose acts in 
violation of this subsection result in the death of a person, commits a felony of the 
first degree, punishable by a term of years not exceeding life, as provided in s. 
775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(11)VIOLATIONS OF 5. 499.005 RELATED TO DEVICES AND COSMETICS; 
DISSEMINATION OF FALSE ADVERTISEMENT.— 

(a)Any person who violates any of the provisions of s. 499.005 with respect to a 

device or cosmetic commits a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as 



provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083; but, if the violation is committed after a 

conviction of such person under this subsection has become final, such person is 
guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or 
s. 775.083 or as otherwise provided in this part, except that any person who violates 
s. 499.005(8) or (10) with respect to a device or cosmetic commits a felony of the 
third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, or as 
otherwise provided in this part. 

(b)A publisher, radio broadcast licensee, or agency or medium for the 
dissemination of an advertisement, except the manufacturer, wholesaler, or seller of 
the article to which a false advertisement relates, is not liable under this subsection 
by reason of the dissemination by him or her of such false advertisement, unless he 
or she has refused, on the request of the department, to furnish to the department 
the name and post office address of the manufacturer, wholesaler, seller, or 
advertising agency that asked him or her to disseminate such advertisement. 

(12)ADULTERATED AND MISBRANDED DRUGS; FALSE ADVERTISEMENT; FAILURE 
TO MAINTAIN RECORDS RELATING TO DRUGS.—Any person who violates any of the 
following provisions commits a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as 
provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083; but, if the violation is committed after a 

conviction of such person under this subsection has become final, such person 
commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or 
s. 775.083, or as otherwise provided in this part: 

(a)The manufacture, repackaging, sale, delivery, or holding or offering for sale of 
any drug that is adulterated or misbranded or has otherwise been rendered unfit for 
human or animal use. 

(b)The adulteration or misbranding of any drug intended for further distribution. 
(c)The receipt of any drug that is adulterated or misbranded, and the delivery or 

proffered delivery of such drug, for pay or otherwise. 
(d)The dissemination of any false or misleading advertisement of a drug. 
(e)The use, on the labeling of any drug or in any advertisement relating to such 

drug, of any representation or suggestion that an application of the drug is effective 
when it is not or that the drug complies with this part when it does not. 

(f)The purchase or receipt of a compressed medical gas from a person that is not 
authorized under this chapter to distribute compressed medical gases. 

(g)Charging a dispensing fee for dispensing, administering, or distributing a 

prescription drug sample. 
(h)The failure to maintain records related to a drug as required by this part and 

rules adopted under this part, except for pedigree papers, invoices, or shipping 
documents related to prescription drugs. 

(i)The possession of any drug in violation of this part, except if the violation relates 
to a deficiency in pedigree papers. 

(13)REFUSAL TO ALLOW INSPECTION; SELLING, PURCHASING, OR TRADING 
DRUG SAMPLES; FAILURE TO MAINTAIN RECORDS RELATING TO PRESCRIPTION 
DRUGS.—Any person who violates any of the following provisions commits a felony 
of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, 
or as otherwise provided in this part: 

(a)The refusal or constructive refusal to allow: 
1.The department to enter or inspect an establishment in which drugs are 

manufactured, processed, repackaged, sold, brokered, or held; 
2.Inspection of any record of that establishment; 
3.The department to enter and inspect any vehicle that is being used to transport 

drugs; or 
4.The department to take samples of any drug. 



(b)The sale, purchase, or trade, or the offer to sell, purchase, or trade, a drug 
sample as defined in s. 499.028; the distribution of a drug sample in violation of s. 
499.028; or the failure to otherwise comply with s. 499.028. 

(c)Providing the department with false or fraudulent records, or making false or 
fraudulent statements, regarding any matter within the provisions of this part related 
to a drug. 

(d)The failure to receive, maintain, or provide invoices and shipping documents, 
other than pedigree papers, if applicable, related to the distribution of a prescription 
drug. 

(e)The importation of a prescription drug for wholesale distribution, except as 
provided by s. 801(d) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. 

(f)The wholesale distribution of a prescription drug that was: 
1.Purchased by a public or private hospital or other health care entity; or 
2.Donated or supplied at a reduced price to a charitable organization. 
(g)The failure to obtain a permit as a prescription drug wholesale distributor when 

a permit is required by this part for that activity. 
(h)Knowingly possessing any adulterated or misbranded prescription drug outside 

of a designated quarantine area. 
(i)The purchase or sale of a prescription drug for wholesale distribution in 

exchange for currency, as defined in s. 560.103. 
(14)OTHER VIOLATIONS.—Any person who violates any of the following provisions 

commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 
775.083, or s. 775.084, or as otherwise provided in this part: 

(a)Knowingly manufacturing, repackaging, selling, delivering, or holding or offering 
for sale any drug that is adulterated or misbranded or has otherwise been rendered 
unfit for human or animal use. 

(b)Knowingly adulterating a drug that is intended for further distribution. 
(c)Knowingly receiving a drug that is adulterated and delivering or proffering 

delivery of such drug for pay or otherwise. 
(d)Committing any act that causes a drug to be a counterfeit drug, or selling, 

dispensing, or knowingly holding for sale a counterfeit drug. 
(e)Forging, counterfeiting, simulating, or falsely representing any drug, or, without 

the authority of the manufacturer, using any mark, stamp, tag, label, or other 
identification device authorized or required by rules adopted under this part. 

(f)Knowingly obtaining or attempting to obtain a prescription drug for wholesale 
distribution by fraud, deceit, misrepresentation, or subterfuge, or engaging in 
misrepresentation or fraud in the distribution of a drug. 

(g)Removing a pharmacy's dispensing label from a dispensed prescription drug 
with the intent to further distribute the prescription drug. 

(h)Knowingly distributing a prescription drug that was previously dispensed by a 

licensed pharmacy, unless such distribution was authorized in chapter 465 or the 
rules adopted under chapter 465. 

(15)FALSE ADVERTISEMENT.—A publisher, radio broadcast licensee, or agency or 
medium for the dissemination of an advertisement, except the manufacturer, 
repackager, wholesale distributor, or seller of the article to which a false 
advertisement relates, is not liable under subsection (12), subsection (13), or 
subsection (14) by reason of the dissemination by him or her of such false 
advertisement, unless he or she has refused, on the request of the department, to 
furnish to the department the name and post office address of the manufacturer, 
repackager, wholesale distributor, seller, or advertising agency that asked him or her 
to disseminate such advertisement. 



(16)FALSE REPORT.—Any person who submits a report required by 5. 

499.0121(14) knowing that such report contains a false statement commits a felony 
of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(17)CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE DISTRIBUTION.—Any person who engages in the 
wholesale distribution of prescription drugs and who knowingly distributes controlled 
substances in violation of s. 499.0121(14) commits a felony of the third degree, 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. In addition to any 
other fine that may be imposed, a person convicted of such a violation may be 
sentenced to pay a fine that does not exceed three times the gross monetary value 
gained from such violation, plus court costs and the reasonable costs of investigation 
and prosecution. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 118, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 47, 52, ch. 92- 
69; s. 595, ch. 97-103; s. 40, ch. 99-397; ss. 5, 6, 7, 8, 27, 28, ch. 2003-155; s. 
16, ch. 2007-6; s. 49, ch. 2008-177; s. 4, ch. 2008-207; s. 16, ch. 2011-141. 
Note.—Subsection (7) former s. 499.0052; subsection (9) former s. 499.00535; 
subsection (10) former s. 499.00545; subsection (11) former s. 499.069; 
subsections (12)-(15) former s. 499.0691. 

499.Oos4Advertising and labeling of drugs, devices, and cosmetics; exemptions.— 
(1)It is a violation of the Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act to perform or cause the 

performance of any of the following acts: 
(a)The dissemination of any false advertisement of any drug, device, or cosmetic. 

An advertisement is false if it is false or misleading in any way. 
(b)The distribution in commerce of any drug, device, or cosmetic, if its labeling or 

advertising is in violation of this part. 
(c)The manufacturing, repackaging, packaging, selling, delivery, holding, or 

offering for sale of any drug, device, or cosmetic for which the advertising or labeling 
is false or misleading. 

(d)The advertising of any drug, device, or cosmetic that is adulterated or 
misbranded. 

(e)The receiving in commerce of any drug, device, or cosmetic that is falsely 
advertised or labeled or the delivering or proffering for delivery of any such drug, 
device, or cosmetic. 

(f)The advertising or labeling of any product containing ephedrine, a salt of 
ephedrine, an isomer of ephedrine, or a salt of an isomer of ephedrine, for the 
indication of stimulation, mental alertness, weight loss, appetite control, energy, or 
other indications not approved by the pertinent United States Food and Drug 
Administration Over-the-Counter Final or Tentative Final Monograph or approved 
new drug application under the federal act. In determining compliance with this 
requirement, the department may consider the following factors: 

1.The packaging of the product. 
2.The name and labeling of the product. 
3.The manner of distribution, advertising, and promotion of the product, including 

verbal representations at the point of sale. 
4.The duration, scope, and significance of abuse of the particular product. 
(g)The advertising of any drug or device represented to have any effect in any of 

the following conditions, disorders, diseases, or processes: 
1.Blood disorders. 
2.Bone or joint diseases. 
3.Kidney diseases or disorders. 
4.Cancer. 
5.Diabetes. 
6.Gall bladder diseases or disorders. 
7.Heart and vascular diseases. 



8.High blood pressure. 
9.Diseases or disorders of the ear or auditory apparatus, including hearing loss or 

deafness. 
10.Mental disease or mental retardation. 
11.Paralysis. 
12.Prostate gland disorders. 
13.Conditions of the scalp affecting hair loss. 
14. Baldness. 
15.Endocrine disorders. 
16.Sexual impotence. 
17 .Tu m 0 rs. 
18.Venereal diseases. 
19.Varicose ulcers. 
20.Breast enlargement. 
21.Purifying blood. 
22.Metabolic disorders. 
23.Immune system disorders or conditions affecting the immune system. 
24. Extension of life expectancy. 
25.Stress and tension. 
26.Brain stimulation or performance. 
27.The body's natural defense mechanisms. 
28.Blood flow. 
29. Depression. 
30.Human immunodeficiency virus or acquired immune deficiency syndrome or 

related disorders or conditions. 
(h)The representation or suggestion in labeling or advertising that an article is 

approved under this part, when such is not the case. 
(2)In determining whether an advertisement is false or misleading, the department 

shall review the representations made or suggested by statement, word, design, 
device, sound, or any combination thereof within the advertisement and the extent 
to which the advertisement fails to reveal material facts with respect to 
consequences that can result from the use of the drug, device, or cosmetic to which 
the advertisement relates under the conditions of use prescribed in the labeling or 
advertisement. 

(3)(a)An advertisement that is not prohibited under paragraph (1)(a) is not 
prohibited under paragraph (1)(g) if it is disseminated: 

1.To the public solely to advertise the product for those indications that are safe 
and effective indications and the product is safe and effective for self-medication, as 
established by the United States Food and Drug Administration; or 

2.Only to members of the medical, dental, pharmaceutical, or veterinary 
professions or appears only in the scientific periodicals of these professions. 

(b)Compliance with this part and the rules adopted under this part creates no legal 
presumption that a drug or device is safe or effective. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 1, 2, 4, ch. 86-271; s. 5, ch. 88- 
172; s. 25, ch. 88-380; ss. 7, 8, 9, 52, ch. 92-69; ss. 2, 3, ch. 95-415; s. 36, ch. 
2000-242; s. 5, ch. 2008-207. 
Note.—Subsection (2) former s. 499.0055; subsection (3) former s. 499.0057. 

499.Oo6Adulterated drug or device.—A drug or device is adulterated: 
(1)If it consists in whole or in part of any filthy, putrid, or decomposed substance; 
(2)If it has been produced, prepared, packed, or held under conditions whereby it 

could have been contaminated with filth or rendered injurious to health; 
(3)If it is a drug and the methods used in, or the facilities or controls used for, its 

manufacture, processing, packing, or holding do not conform to, or are not operated 



or administered in conformity with, current good manufacturing practices to assure 
that the drug meets the requirements of this part and that the drug has the identity 
and strength, and meets the standard of quality and purity, which it purports or is 
represented to possess; 

(4)If it is a drug and its container is composed, in whole or in part, of any 
poisonous or deleterious substance which could render the contents injurious to 
health; 

(5)If it is a drug and it bears or contains, for the purpose of coloring only, a color 
additive that is unsafe within the meaning of the federal act; or, if it is a color 
additive, the intended use of which in or on drugs is for the purpose of coloring only, 
and it is unsafe within the meaning of the federal act; 

(6)If it purports to be, or is represented as, a drug the name of which is recognized 
in the official compendium, and its strength differs from, or its quality or purity falls 
below, the standard set forth in such compendium. The determination as to strength, 
quality, or purity must be made in accordance with the tests or methods of assay set 
forth in such compendium, or, when such tests or methods of assay are absent or 
inadequate, in accordance with those tests or methods of assay prescribed under 
authority of the federal act. A drug defined in the official compendium is not 
adulterated under this subsection merely because it differs from the standard of 
strength, quality, or purity set forth for that drug in such compendium if its 
difference in strength, quality, or purity from such standard is plainly stated on its 
label; 

(7)If it is not subject to subsection (6) and its strength differs from, or its purity or 
quality falls below the standard of, that which it purports or is represented to 
possess; 

(8)If it is a drug: 
(a)With which any substance has been mixed or packed so as to reduce the quality 

or strength of the drug; or 
(b)For which any substance has been substituted wholly or in part; 
(9)If it is a drug or device for which the expiration date has passed; 
(lO)If it is a prescription drug for which the required pedigree paper is nonexistent, 

fraudulent, or incomplete under the requirements of this part or applicable rules, or 
that has been purchased, held, sold, or distributed at any time by a person not 
authorized under federal or state law to do so; or 

(ll)If it is a prescription drug subject to, defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of 
the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act which has been returned by a veterinarian 
to a limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 10, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 9, ch. 2003- 
155; s. 1, ch. 2006-92; s. 6, ch. 2008-207. 

499.Oo7Misbranded drug or device.—A drug or device is misbranded: 
(l)If its labeling is in any way false or misleading. 
(2)If in package form, it does not bear a label containing: 
(a)The name and place of business of the manufacturer, repackager, or distributor 

of the finished dosage form of the drug. For the purpose of this paragraph, the 
finished dosage form of a prescription drug is that form of the drug which is, or is 
intended to be, dispensed or administered to the patient and requires no further 
manufacturing or processing other than packaging, reconstitution, and labeling; and 

(b)An accurate statement of the quantity of the contents in terms of weight, 
measure, or numerical count. However, under this section, reasonable variations are 
permitted, and the department shall establish by rule exemptions for small 
packages. 

(3)If it is an active pharmaceutical ingredient in bulk form and does not bear a 

label containing: 



(a)The name and place of business of the manufacturer, repackager, or distributor; 
and 

(b)An accurate statement of the quantity of the contents in terms of weight, 
measure, or numerical count. 

(4)If any word, statement, or other information required by or under this part to 
appear on the label or labeling is not prominently placed thereon with such 
conspicuousness as compared with other words, statements, designs, or devices in 
the labeling, and in such terms, as to render the word, statement, or other 
information likely to be read and understood under customary conditions of purchase 
and use. 

(5)If it is a drug and is not designated solely by a name recognized in an official 
compendium and its label does not bear: 

(a)The common or usual name of the drug, if any; and 
(b)In case it is fabricated from two or more ingredients, the common or usual 

name and quantity of each active ingredient. 
(6)If its labeling does not bear: 
(a)Adequate directions for use; and 
(b)Adequate warnings against use in those pathological conditions in which its use 

may be dangerous to health or against use by children if its use may be dangerous 
to health, or against unsafe dosage or methods or duration of administration or 
application, in such manner and form as are necessary for the protection of users. 

(7)If it purports to be a drug the name of which is recognized in the official 
compendium and it is not packaged and labeled as prescribed therein. However, the 
method of packaging may be modified with the consent of the department. 

(8)If it has been found by the department to be a drug liable to deterioration and it 
is not packaged in such form and manner, and its label bears a statement of such 
precautions, as the department by rule requires as necessary to protect the public 
health. Such rule may not be established for any drug recognized in an official 
compendium until the department has informed the appropriate body charged with 
the revision of such compendium of the need for such packaging or labeling 
requirements and that body has failed within a reasonable time to prescribe such 
requirements. 

(9)If it is: 
(a)A drug and its container or finished dosage form is so made, formed, or filled as 

to be misleading; 
(b)An imitation of another drug; or 
(c)Offered for sale under the name of another drug. 
(1O)If it is dangerous to health when used in the dosage or with the frequency or 

duration prescribed, recommended, or suggested in the labeling of the drug. 
(11)If it is, purports to be, or is represented as a drug composed wholly or partly 

of insulin and it is not from a batch with respect to which a certificate has been 
issued pursuant to s. 506 of the federal act, which certificate is in effect with respect 
to the drug. 

(12)If it is, purports to be, or is represented as a drug composed wholly or partly 
of any kind of antibiotic requiring certification under the federal act and it is not from 
a batch with respect to which a certificate has been issued pursuant to s. 507 of the 
federal act, which certificate is in effect with respect to the drug. However, this 
subsection does not apply to any drug or class of drugs exempted by regulations 
adopted under s. 507(c) or (d) of the federal act. 

(13)If it is a drug intended for use by humans which is a habit-forming drug or 
which, because of its toxicity or other potentiality for harmful effect, or the method 
of its use, or the collateral measures necessary to its use, is not safe for use except 
under the supervision of a practitioner licensed by law to administer such drugs, or 



which is limited by an effective application under s. 505 of the federal act to use 
under the professional supervision of a practitioner licensed by law to prescribe such 
drug, if it is not dispensed only: 

(a)Upon the written prescription of a practitioner licensed by law to prescribe such 
drug; 

(b)Upon an oral prescription of such practitioner, which is reduced promptly to 
writing and filled by the pharmacist; or 

(c)By refilling any such written or oral prescription, if such refilling is authorized by 
the prescriber in the original prescription or by oral order which is reduced promptly 
to writing and filled by the pharmacist. 

This subsection does not relieve any person from any requirement prescribed by law with 
respect to controLLed substances as defined in the appLicabLe federal and state laws. 

(14)If it is a drug that is subject to paragraph (13)(a), and if, at any time before it 
is dispensed, its label does not bear the statement: 

(a)"Caution: Federal Law Prohibits Dispensing Without Prescription"; 
(b)"Rx Only"; 
(c)The prescription symbol followed by the word "Only"; or 
(d)"Caution: State Law Prohibits Dispensing Without Prescription." 
(15)If it is a drug that is not subject to paragraph (13)(a), if at any time before it 

is dispensed its label bears the statement of caution required in subsection (14). 
(16)If it is a color additive, the intended use of which in or on drugs is for the 

purpose of coloring only and its packaging and labeling are not in conformity with the 
packaging and labeling requirements that apply to such color additive and are 
prescribed under the federal act. 

(17)A drug dispensed by filling or refilling a written or oral prescription of a 

practitioner licensed by law to prescribe such drug is exempt from the requirements 
of this section, except subsections (1), (9), (11), and (12) and the packaging 
requirements of subsections (7) and (8), if the drug bears a label that contains the 
name and address of the dispenser or seller, the prescription number and the date 
the prescription was written or filled, the name of the prescriber and the name of the 
patient, and the directions for use and cautionary statements. This exemption does 
not apply to any drug dispensed in the course of the conduct of a business of 
dispensing drugs pursuant to diagnosis by mail or to any drug dispensed in violation 
of subsection (13). The department may, by rule, exempt drugs subject to s. 
499.062 from subsection (13) if compliance with that subsection is not necessary to 
protect the public health, safety, and welfare. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 107, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 2, ch. 84-115; 
ss. 11, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 586, ch. 97-103; s. 38, ch. 99-397; s. 10, ch. 2003-155; s. 
84, ch. 2004-5; s. 7, ch. 2008-207. 

499.Oo8Adulterated cosmetics.—A cosmetic is adulterated: 
(1)If it bears or contains any poisonous or deleterious substance that is injurious to 

users under the conditions of use prescribed in the labeling or advertisement thereof 
or under such conditions of use as are customary or usual; however, this subsection 
does not apply to coal-tar hair dye: 

(a)The label of which bears the following legend conspicuously displayed thereon: 
"Caution: This product contains ingredients which may cause skin irritation on certain 
individuals, and a preliminary test according to accompanying directions should first 
be made. This product must not be used for dyeing the eyelashes or eyebrows; to do 
so may cause blindness"; and 

(b)The labeling of which bears adequate directions for such preliminary testing. 
(2)If it consists in whole or in part of any filthy, putrid, or decomposed substance. 



(3)If it has been produced, prepared, packed, or held under conditions whereby it 
could have become contaminated with filth or whereby it could have been rendered 
injurious to health. 

(4)If it is not a hair dye and it is, or it bears or contains, a color additive that is 
unsafe within the meaning of the federal act. 

(5)For the purposes of subsections (1) and (4), the term "hair dye" does not 
include eyelash dyes or eyebrow dyes. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 12, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 8, ch. 2008- 
207. 

499.O09Misbranded cosmetics.—A cosmetic is misbranded: 
(l)If its labeling is false or misleading in any particular. 
(2)If in package form, it does not bear a label containing: 
(a)The name and place of business of the manufacturer, packer, or distributor; 
(b)An accurate statement of the quantity of the contents in terms of weight, 

measure, or numerical count; however, under this paragraph reasonable variations 
are permitted, and the department shall establish by rule exemptions for small 
packages; and 

(c)A declaration of ingredients in descending order of predominance, or as 
otherwise required by federal law. 

(3)If any word, statement, or other information required by or under authority of 
this part to appear on the label or labeling is not prominently placed thereon with 
such conspicuousness as compared with other words, statements, designs, or 
devices in the labeling, and in such terms, as to render the word, statement, or other 
information likely to be read and understood by an individual under customary 
conditions of purchase and use. 

(4)If its container is so made, formed, or filled as to be misleading. 
(5)If it is a color additive, its packaging and labeling are not in conformity with the 

packaging and labeling requirements applicable to that color additive prescribed 
under the federal act. This subsection does not apply to packages of color additives 
that, with respect to their use for cosmetics, are marketed and intended for use only 
in or on hair dyes. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 13, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 9, ch. 2008- 
207. 

499.OlPermits.— 
(1)Prior to operating, a permit is required for each person and establishment that 

intends to operate as: 
(a)A prescription drug manufacturer; 
(b)A prescription drug repackager; 
(c)A nonresident prescription drug manufacturer; 
(d)A prescription drug wholesale distributor; 
(e)An out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor; 
(f)A retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor; 
(g)A restricted prescription drug distributor; 
(h)A complimentary drug distributor; 
(i)A freight forwarder; 
(j)A veterinary prescription drug retail establishment; 
(k)A veterinary prescription drug wholesale distributor; 
(l)A limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor; 
(m)A medical oxygen retail establishment; 
(n)A compressed medical gas wholesale distributor; 
(o)A compressed medical gas manufacturer; 
(p)An over-the-counter drug manufacturer; 
(q)A device manufacturer; 



(r)A cosmetic manufacturer; 
(s)A third party logistics provider; or 
(t)A health care clinic establishment. 
(2)The following permits are established: 
(a)Prescription drug manufacturer permit.—A prescription drug manufacturer 

permit is required for any person that is a manufacturer of a prescription drug and 
that manufactures or distributes such prescription drugs in this state. 

l.A person that operates an establishment permitted as a prescription drug 
manufacturer may engage in wholesale distribution of prescription drugs 
manufactured at that establishment and must comply with all of the provisions of 
this part, except s. 499.01212, and the rules adopted under this part, except s. 
499.01212, which apply to a wholesale distributor. 

2.A prescription drug manufacturer must comply with all appropriate state and 
federal good manufacturing practices. 

3.A blood establishment, as defined in s. 381.06014, operating in a manner 
consistent with the provisions of 21 C.F.R. parts 211 and 600-640, and 
manufacturing only the prescription drugs described in s. 499.003(54)(d) is not 
required to be permitted as a prescription drug manufacturer under this paragraph or 
to register products under s. 499.015. 

(b)Prescription drug repackager permit.—A prescription drug repackager permit is 
required for any person that repackages a prescription drug in this state. 

l.A person that operates an establishment permitted as a prescription drug 
repackager may engage in wholesale distribution of prescription drugs repackaged at 
that establishment and must comply with all the provisions of this part and the rules 
adopted under this part that apply to a wholesale distributor. 

2.A prescription drug repackager must comply with all appropriate state and 
federal good manufacturing practices. 

(c)Nonresident prescription drug manufacturer permit.—A nonresident prescription 
drug manufacturer permit is required for any person that is a manufacturer of 
prescription drugs, unless permitted as a third party logistics provider, located 
outside of this state or outside the United States and that engages in the wholesale 
distribution in this state of such prescription drugs. Each such manufacturer must be 
permitted by the department and comply with all of the provisions required of a 

wholesale distributor under this part, except s. 499.01212. 
l.A person that distributes prescription drugs for which the person is not the 

manufacturer must also obtain an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor 
permit or third party logistics provider permit pursuant to this section to engage in 
the wholesale distribution of such prescription drugs. This subparagraph does not 
apply to a manufacturer as defined in s. 499.003(31)(e). 

2.Any such person must comply with the licensing or permitting requirements of 
the jurisdiction in which the establishment is located and the federal act, and any 
product wholesaled into this state must comply with this part. If a person intends to 
import prescription drugs from a foreign country into this state, the nonresident 
prescription drug manufacturer must provide to the department a list identifying 
each prescription drug it intends to import and document approval by the United 
States Food and Drug Administration for such importation. 

(d)Prescription drug wholesale distributor permit.—A prescription drug wholesale 
distributor is a wholesale distributor that may engage in the wholesale distribution of 
prescription drugs. A prescription drug wholesale distributor that applies to the 
department for a new permit or the renewal of a permit must submit a bond of 
$100,000, or other equivalent means of security acceptable to the department, such 
as an irrevocable letter of credit or a deposit in a trust account or financial 
institution, payable to the Professional Regulation Trust Fund. The purpose of the 



bond is to secure payment of any administrative penalties imposed by the 
department and any fees and costs incurred by the department regarding that 
permit which are authorized under state law and which the permittee fails to pay 30 
days after the fine or costs become final. The department may make a claim against 
such bond or security until 1 year after the permittee's license ceases to be valid or 
until 60 days after any administrative or legal proceeding authorized in this part 
which involves the permittee is concluded, including any appeal, whichever occurs 
later. The department may adopt rules for issuing a prescription drug wholesale 
distributor-broker permit to a person who engages in the wholesale distribution of 
prescription drugs and does not take physical possession of any prescription drugs. 

(e)Out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor permit.—An out-of-state 
prescription drug wholesale distributor is a wholesale distributor located outside this 
state which engages in the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs into this state 
and which must be permitted by the department and comply with all the provisions 
required of a wholesale distributor under this part. An out-of-state prescription drug 
wholesale distributor that applies to the department for a new permit or the renewal 
of a permit must submit a bond of $100,000, or other equivalent means of security 
acceptable to the department, such as an irrevocable letter of credit or a deposit in a 

trust account or financial institution, payable to the Professional Regulation Trust 
Fund. The purpose of the bond is to secure payment of any administrative penalties 
imposed by the department and any fees and costs incurred by the department 
regarding that permit which are authorized under state law and which the permittee 
fails to pay 30 days after the fine or costs become final. The department may make a 

claim against such bond or security until 1 year after the permittee's license ceases 
to be valid or until 60 days after any administrative or legal proceeding authorized in 
this part which involves the permittee is concluded, including any appeal, whichever 
occurs later. The out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor must maintain 
at all times a license or permit to engage in the wholesale distribution of prescription 
drugs in compliance with laws of the state in which it is a resident. 

(f)Retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit.—A retail pharmacy drug 
wholesale distributor is a retail pharmacy engaged in wholesale distribution of 
prescription drugs within this state under the following conditions: 

1.The pharmacy must obtain a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit 
pursuant to this part and the rules adopted under this part. 

2.The wholesale distribution activity does not exceed 30 percent of the total annual 
purchases of prescription drugs. If the wholesale distribution activity exceeds the 30- 
percent maximum, the pharmacy must obtain a prescription drug wholesale 
distributor permit. 

3.The transfer of prescription drugs that appear in any schedule contained in 
chapter 893 is subject to chapter 893 and the federal Comprehensive Drug Abuse 
Prevention and Control Act of 1970. 

4.The transfer is between a retail pharmacy and another retail pharmacy, or a 

Modified Class II institutional pharmacy, or a health care practitioner licensed in this 
state and authorized by law to dispense or prescribe prescription drugs. 

5.All records of sales of prescription drugs subject to this section must be 
maintained separate and distinct from other records and comply with the 
recordkeeping requirements of this part. 

(g)Restricted prescription drug distributor permit.— 
l.A restricted prescription drug distributor permit is required for: 
a.Any person located in this state who engages in the distribution of a prescription 

drug, which distribution is not considered "wholesale distribution" under s. 
499.003(54)(a). 



b.Any person located in this state who engages in the receipt or distribution of a 

prescription drug in this state for the purpose of processing its return or its 
destruction if such person is not the person initiating the return, the prescription 
drug wholesale supplier of the person initiating the return, or the manufacturer of 
the drug. 

c.A blood establishment located in this state which collects blood and blood 
components only from volunteer donors as defined in s. 381.06014 or pursuant to an 
authorized practitioner's order for medical treatment or therapy and engages in the 
wholesale distribution of a prescription drug not described in s. 499.003(54)(d) to a 

health care entity. A mobile blood unit operated by a blood establishment permitted 
under this sub-subparagraph is not required to be separately permitted. The health 
care entity receiving a prescription drug distributed under this sub-subparagraph 
must be licensed as a closed pharmacy or provide health care services at that 
establishment. The blood establishment must operate in accordance with s. 
381.06014 and may distribute only: 

(I)Prescription drugs indicated for a bleeding or clotting disorder or anemia; 
(II)Blood-collection containers approved under s. 505 of the federal act; 
(III)Drugs that are blood derivatives, or a recombinant or synthetic form of a blood 

derivative; 
(IV)Prescription drugs that are identified in rules adopted by the department and 

that are essential to services performed or provided by blood establishments and 
authorized for distribution by blood establishments under federal law; or 

(V)To the extent authorized by federal law, drugs necessary to collect blood or 
blood components from volunteer blood donors; for blood establishment personnel to 
perform therapeutic procedures under the direction and supervision of a licensed 
physician; and to diagnose, treat, manage, and prevent any reaction of a volunteer 
blood donor or a patient undergoing a therapeutic procedure performed under the 
direction and supervision of a licensed physician, 

as long as all of the health care services provided by the blood establishment are related to its 
activities as a registered blood establishment or the health care services consist of collecting, 
processing, storing, or administering human hematopoietic stem cells or progenitor cells or 
performing diagnostic testing of specimens if such specimens are tested together with 
specimens undergoing routine donor testing. The blood establishment may purchase and 
possess the drugs described in this sub-subparagraph without a health care clinic establishment 
permit. 

2.Storage, handling, and recordkeeping of these distributions by a person required 
to be permitted as a restricted prescription drug distributor must be in accordance 
with the requirements for wholesale distributors under s. 499.0121, but not those set 
forth in s. 499.01212 if the distribution occurs pursuant to sub-subparagraph l.a. or 
sub-subparagraph 1.b. 

3.A person who applies for a permit as a restricted prescription drug distributor, or 
for the renewal of such a permit, must provide to the department the information 
required under s. 499.012. 

4.The department may adopt rules regarding the distribution of prescription drugs 
by hospitals, health care entities, charitable organizations, other persons not 
involved in wholesale distribution, and blood establishments, which rules are 
necessary for the protection of the public health, safety, and welfare. 

(h)Complimentary drug distributor permit.—A complimentary drug distributor 
permit is required for any person that engages in the distribution of a complimentary 
drug, subject to the requirements of s. 499.028. 



(i)Freight forwarder permit.—A freight forwarder permit is required for any person 
that engages in the distribution of a prescription drug as a freight forwarder unless 
the person is a common carrier. The storage, handling, and recordkeeping of such 
distributions must comply with the requirements for wholesale distributors under s. 
499.0121, but not those set forth in s. 499.01212. A freight forwarder must provide 
the source of the prescription drugs with a validated airway bill, bill of lading, or 
other appropriate documentation to evidence the exportation of the product. 

(j)Veterinary prescription drug retail establishment permit.—A veterinary 
prescription drug retail establishment permit is required for any person that sells 
veterinary prescription drugs to the public but does not include a pharmacy licensed 
under chapter 465. 

1.The sale to the public must be based on a valid written order from a veterinarian 
licensed in this state who has a valid client-veterinarian relationship with the 
purchaser's animal. 

2.Veterinary prescription drugs may not be sold in excess of the amount clearly 
indicated on the order or beyond the date indicated on the order. 

3.An order may not be valid for more than 1 year. 
4.A veterinary prescription drug retail establishment may not purchase, sell, trade, 

or possess human prescription drugs or any controlled substance as defined in 
chapter 893. 

5.A veterinary prescription drug retail establishment must sell a veterinary 
prescription drug in the original, sealed manufacturer's container with all labeling 
intact and legible. The department may adopt by rule additional labeling 
requirements for the sale of a veterinary prescription drug. 

6.A veterinary prescription drug retail establishment must comply with all of the 
wholesale distribution requirements of s. 499.0121. 

7.Prescription drugs sold by a veterinary prescription drug retail establishment 
pursuant to a practitioner's order may not be returned into the retail establishment's 
inventory. 

(k)Veterinary prescription drug wholesale distributor permit.—A veterinary 
prescription drug wholesale distributor permit is required for any person that 
engages in the distribution of veterinary prescription drugs in or into this state. A 
veterinary prescription drug wholesale distributor that also distributes prescription 
drugs subject to, defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, 
and Cosmetic Act which it did not manufacture must obtain a permit as a 

prescription drug wholesale distributor, an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale 
distributor, or a limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor in lieu of 
the veterinary prescription drug wholesale distributor permit. A veterinary 
prescription drug wholesale distributor must comply with the requirements for 
wholesale distributors under s. 499.0121, but not those set forth in s. 499.01212. 

(l)Limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor permit.—Unless 
engaging in the activities of and permitted as a prescription drug manufacturer, 
nonresident prescription drug manufacturer, prescription drug wholesale distributor, 
or out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor, a limited prescription drug 
veterinary wholesale distributor permit is required for any person that engages in the 
distribution in or into this state of veterinary prescription drugs and prescription 
drugs subject to, defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, 
and Cosmetic Act under the following conditions: 

1.The person is engaged in the business of wholesaling prescription and veterinary 
prescription drugs to persons: 

a.Licensed as veterinarians practicing on a full-time basis; 
b.Regularly and lawfully engaged in instruction in veterinary medicine; 
c.Regularly and lawfully engaged in law enforcement activities; 



d.For use in research not involving clinical use; or 
e.For use in chemical analysis or physical testing or for purposes of instruction in 

law enforcement activities, research, or testing. 
2.No more than 30 percent of total annual prescription drug sales may be 

prescription drugs approved for human use which are subject to, defined by, or 
described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. 

3.The person does not distribute in any jurisdiction prescription drugs subject to, 
defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act to 
any person who is authorized to sell, distribute, purchase, trade, or use these drugs 
on or for humans. 

4.A limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor that applies to the 
department for a new permit or the renewal of a permit must submit a bond of 
$20,000, or other equivalent means of security acceptable to the department, such 
as an irrevocable letter of credit or a deposit in a trust account or financial 
institution, payable to the Professional Regulation Trust Fund. The purpose of the 
bond is to secure payment of any administrative penalties imposed by the 
department and any fees and costs incurred by the department regarding that 
permit which are authorized under state law and which the permittee fails to pay 30 
days after the fine or costs become final. The department may make a claim against 
such bond or security until 1 year after the permittee's license ceases to be valid or 
until 60 days after any administrative or legal proceeding authorized in this part 
which involves the permittee is concluded, including any appeal, whichever occurs 
later. 

5.A limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor must maintain at all 
times a license or permit to engage in the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs 
in compliance with laws of the state in which it is a resident. 

6.A limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor must comply with the 
requirements for wholesale distributors under ss. 499.0121 and 499.01212, except 
that a limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor is not required to 
provide a pedigree paper as required by s. 499.01212 upon the wholesale 
distribution of a prescription drug to a veterinarian. 

7.A limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor may not return to 
inventory for subsequent wholesale distribution any prescription drug subject to, 
defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act 
which has been returned by a veterinarian. 

8.A limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor permit is not required 
for an intracompany sale or transfer of a prescription drug from an out-of-state 
establishment that is duly licensed to engage in the wholesale distribution of 
prescription drugs in its state of residence to a licensed limited prescription drug 
veterinary wholesale distributor in this state if both wholesale distributors conduct 
wholesale distributions of prescription drugs under the same business name. The 
recordkeeping requirements of ss. 499.0121(6) and 499.01212 must be followed for 
this transaction. 

(m)Medical oxygen retail establishment permit.—A medical oxygen retail 
establishment permit is required for any person that sells medical oxygen to patients 
only. The sale must be based on an order from a practitioner authorized by law to 
prescribe. The term does not include a pharmacy licensed under chapter 465. 

l.A medical oxygen retail establishment may not possess, purchase, sell, or trade 
any prescription drug other than medical oxygen. 

2.A medical oxygen retail establishment may refill medical oxygen for an individual 
patient based on an order from a practitioner authorized by law to prescribe. A 
medical oxygen retail establishment that refills medical oxygen must comply with all 
appropriate state and federal good manufacturing practices. 



3.A medical oxygen retail establishment must comply with all of the wholesale 
distribution requirements of s. 499.0121. 

4.Prescription medical oxygen sold by a medical oxygen retail establishment 
pursuant to a practitioner's order may not be returned into the retail establishment's 
inventory. 

(n)Compressed medical gas wholesale distributor permit.—A compressed medical 
gas wholesale distributor is a wholesale distributor that is limited to the wholesale 
distribution of compressed medical gases to other than the consumer or patient. The 
compressed medical gas must be in the original sealed container that was purchased 
by that wholesale distributor. A compressed medical gas wholesale distributor may 
not possess or engage in the wholesale distribution of any prescription drug other 
than compressed medical gases. The department shall adopt rules that govern the 
wholesale distribution of prescription medical oxygen for emergency use. With 
respect to the emergency use of prescription medical oxygen, those rules may not be 
inconsistent with rules and regulations of federal agencies unless the Legislature 
specifically directs otherwise. 

(o)Compressed medical gas manufacturer permit.—A compressed medical gas 
manufacturer permit is required for any person that engages in the manufacture of 
compressed medical gases or repackages compressed medical gases from one 
container to another. 

l.A compressed medical gas manufacturer may not manufacture or possess any 
prescription drug other than compressed medical gases. 

2.A compressed medical gas manufacturer may engage in wholesale distribution of 
compressed medical gases manufactured at that establishment and must comply 
with all the provisions of this part and the rules adopted under this part that apply to 
a wholesale distributor. 

3.A compressed medical gas manufacturer must comply with all appropriate state 
and federal good manufacturing practices. 

(p)Over-the-counter drug manufacturer permit.—An over-the-counter drug 
manufacturer permit is required for any person that engages in the manufacture or 
repackaging of an over-the-counter drug. 

1.An over-the-counter drug manufacturer may not possess or purchase 
prescription drugs. 

2.A pharmacy is exempt from obtaining an over-the-counter drug manufacturer 
permit if it is operating in compliance with pharmacy practice standards as defined in 
chapter 465 and the rules adopted under that chapter. 

3.An over-the-counter drug manufacturer must comply with all appropriate state 
and federal good manufacturing practices. 

(q)Device manufacturer permit.— 
l.A device manufacturer permit is required for any person that engages in the 

manufacture, repackaging, or assembly of medical devices for human use in this 
state, except that a permit is not required if: 

a.The person is engaged only in manufacturing, repackaging, or assembling a 

medical device pursuant to a practitioner's order for a specific patient; or 
b.The person does not manufacture, repackage, or assemble any medical devices 

or components for such devices, except those devices or components which are 
exempt from registration pursuant to s. 499.015(8). 

2.A manufacturer or repackager of medical devices in this state must comply with 
all appropriate state and federal good manufacturing practices and quality system 
rules. 

3.The department shall adopt rules related to storage, handling, and recordkeeping 
requirements for manufacturers of medical devices for human use. 



(r)Cosmetic manufacturer permit.—A cosmetic manufacturer permit is required for 
any person that manufactures or repackages cosmetics in this state. A person that 
only labels or changes the labeling of a cosmetic but does not open the container 
sealed by the manufacturer of the product is exempt from obtaining a permit under 
this paragraph. 

(s)Third party logistics provider permit.—A third party logistics provider permit is 
required for any person that contracts with a prescription drug wholesale distributor 
or prescription drug manufacturer to provide warehousing, distribution, or other 
logistics services on behalf of a manufacturer or wholesale distributor, but who does 
not take title to the prescription drug or have responsibility to direct the sale or 
disposition of the prescription drug. Each third party logistics provider permittee shall 
comply with the requirements for wholesale distributors under ss. 499.0121 and 
499.01212, with the exception of those wholesale distributions described in s. 
499.01212(3)(a), and other rules that the department requires. 

(t)Health care clinic establishment permit.—Effective January 1, 2009, a health 
care clinic establishment permit is required for the purchase of a prescription drug by 
a place of business at one general physical location that provides health care or 
veterinary services, which is owned and operated by a business entity that has been 
issued a federal employer tax identification number. For the purpose of this 
paragraph, the term "qualifying practitioner" means a licensed health care 
practitioner defined in s. 456.001, or a veterinarian licensed under chapter 474, who 
is authorized under the appropriate practice act to prescribe and administer a 

prescription drug. 
1.An establishment must provide, as part of the application required under s. 

499.012, designation of a qualifying practitioner who will be responsible for 
complying with all legal and regulatory requirements related to the purchase, 
recordkeeping, storage, and handling of the prescription drugs. In addition, the 
designated qualifying practitioner shall be the practitioner whose name, 
establishment address, and license number is used on all distribution documents for 
prescription drugs purchased or returned by the health care clinic establishment. 
Upon initial appointment of a qualifying practitioner, the qualifying practitioner and 
the health care clinic establishment shall notify the department on a form furnished 
by the department within 10 days after such employment. In addition, the qualifying 
practitioner and health care clinic establishment shall notify the department within 
10 days after any subsequent change. 

2.The health care clinic establishment must employ a qualifying practitioner at 
each establishment. 

3.In addition to the remedies and penalties provided in this part, a violation of this 
chapter by the health care clinic establishment or qualifying practitioner constitutes 
grounds for discipline of the qualifying practitioner by the appropriate regulatory 
board. 

4.The purchase of prescription drugs by the health care clinic establishment is 
prohibited during any period of time when the establishment does not comply with 
this paragraph. 

5.A health care clinic establishment permit is not a pharmacy permit or otherwise 
subject to chapter 465. A health care clinic establishment that meets the criteria of a 

modified Class II institutional pharmacy under s. 465.019 is not eligible to be 
permitted under this paragraph. 

6.This paragraph does not apply to the purchase of a prescription drug by a 

licensed practitioner under his or her license. 
(3)A nonresident prescription drug manufacturer permit is not required for a 

manufacturer to distribute a prescription drug active pharmaceutical ingredient that 
it manufactures to a prescription drug manufacturer permitted in this state in limited 



quantities intended for research and development and not for resale or human use 
other than lawful clinical trials and biostudies authorized and regulated by federal 
law. A manufacturer claiming to be exempt from the permit requirements of this 
subsection and the prescription drug manufacturer purchasing and receiving the 
active pharmaceutical ingredient shall comply with the recordkeeping requirements 
of s. 499.0121(6), but not the requirements of s. 499.01212. The prescription drug 
manufacturer purchasing and receiving the active pharmaceutical ingredient shall 
maintain on file a record of the FDA registration number; if available, the out-of- 
state license, permit, or registration number; and, if available, a copy of the most 
current FDA inspection report, for all manufacturers from whom they purchase active 
pharmaceutical ingredients under this section. The department shall define the term 
"limited quantities" by rule, and may include the allowable number of transactions 
within a given period of time and the amount of prescription drugs distributed into 
the state for purposes of this exemption. The failure to comply with the requirements 
of this subsection, or rules adopted by the department to administer this subsection, 
for the purchase of prescription drug active pharmaceutical ingredients is a violation 
of s. 499.005(14), and a knowing failure is a violation of s. 499.0051(4). 

(4)(a)A permit issued under this part is not required to distribute a prescription 
drug active pharmaceutical ingredient from an establishment located in the United 
States to an establishment located in this state permitted as a prescription drug 
manufacturer under this part for use by the recipient in preparing, deriving, 
processing, producing, or fabricating a prescription drug finished dosage form at the 
establishment in this state where the product is received under an approved and 
otherwise valid New Drug Approval Application, Abbreviated New Drug Application, 
New Animal Drug Application, or Therapeutic Biologic Application, provided that the 
application, active pharmaceutical ingredient, or finished dosage form has not been 
withdrawn or removed from the market in this country for public health reasons. 

1.Any distributor claiming exemption from permitting requirements pursuant to 
this paragraph shall maintain a license, permit, or registration to engage in the 
wholesale distribution of prescription drugs under the laws of the state from which 
the product is distributed. 

2.Any distributor claiming exemption from permitting requirements pursuant to 
this paragraph and the prescription drug manufacturer purchasing and receiving the 
active pharmaceutical ingredient shall comply with the recordkeeping requirements 
of s. 499.0121(6), but not the requirements of s. 499.01212. 

(b)A permit issued under this part is not required to distribute limited quantities of 
a prescription drug that has not been repackaged from an establishment located in 
the United States to an establishment located in this state permitted as a 

prescription drug manufacturer under this part for research and development or to a 

holder of a letter of exemption issued by the department under s. 499.03(4) for 
research, teaching, or testing. The department shall define "limited quantities" by 
rule and may include the allowable number of transactions within a given period of 
time and the amounts of prescription drugs distributed into the state for purposes of 
this exemption. 

1.Any distributor claiming exemption from permitting requirements pursuant to 
this paragraph shall maintain a license, permit, or registration to engage in the 
wholesale distribution of prescription drugs under the laws of the state from which 
the product is distributed. 

2.All purchasers and recipients of any prescription drugs distributed pursuant to 
this paragraph shall ensure that the products are not resold or used, directly or 
indirectly, on humans except in lawful clinical trials and biostudies authorized and 
regulated by federal law. 



3.Any distributor claiming exemption from permitting requirements pursuant to 
this paragraph, and the purchaser and recipient of the prescription drug, shall 
comply with the recordkeeping requirements of s. 499.0121(6), but not the 
requirements of s. 499.01212. 

4.The immediate package or container of any active pharmaceutical ingredient 
distributed into the state that is intended for teaching, testing, research, and 
development shall bear a label prominently displaying the statement: "Caution: 
Research, Teaching, or Testing Only — Not for Manufacturing, Compounding, or 
Resale." 

(c)An out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor permit is not required for 
an intracompany sale or transfer of a prescription drug from an out-of-state 
establishment that is duly licensed as a prescription drug wholesale distributor in its 
state of residence to a licensed prescription drug wholesale distributor in this state, if 
both wholesale distributors conduct wholesale distributions of prescription drugs 
under the same business name. The recordkeeping requirements of ss. 499.0121(6) 
and 499.01212 must be followed for such transactions. 

(d)Persons receiving prescription drugs from a source claimed to be exempt from 
permitting requirements under this subsection shall maintain on file: 

l.A record of the FDA establishment registration number, if any; 
2.The resident state prescription drug wholesale distribution license, permit, or 

registration number; and 
3.A copy of the most recent resident state or FDA inspection report, for all 

distributors and establishments from whom they purchase or receive prescription 
drugs under this subsection. 

(e)All persons claiming exemption from permitting requirements pursuant to this 
subsection who engage in the distribution of prescription drugs within or into the 
state are subject to this part, including ss. 499.005 and 499.0051, and shall make 
available, within 48 hours, to the department on request all records related to any 
prescription drugs distributed under this subsection, including those records 
described in s. 499.051(4), regardless of the location where the records are stored. 

(f)A person purchasing and receiving a prescription drug from a person claimed to 
be exempt from licensing requirements pursuant to this subsection shall report to 
the department in writing within 14 days after receiving any product that is 
misbranded or adulterated or that fails to meet minimum standards set forth in the 
official compendium or state or federal good manufacturing practices for identity, 
purity, potency, or sterility, regardless of whether the product is thereafter 
rehabilitated, quarantined, returned, or destroyed. 

(g)The department may adopt rules to administer this subsection which are 
necessary for the protection of the public health, safety, and welfare. Failure to 
comply with the requirements of this subsection, or rules adopted by the department 
to administer this subsection, is a violation of s. 499.005(14), and a knowing failure 
is a violation of s. 499.0051(4). 

(h)This subsection does not relieve any person from any requirement prescribed by 
law with respect to controlled substances as defined in the applicable federal and 
state laws. 

(5)A prescription drug repackager permit issued under this part is not required for 
a restricted prescription drug distributor permitholder that is a health care entity to 
repackage prescription drugs in this state for its own use or for distribution to 
hospitals or other health care entities in the state for their own use, pursuant to s. 
499.003(54)(a)3., if: 

(a)The prescription drug distributor notifies the department, in writing, of its 
intention to engage in repackaging under this exemption, 30 days before engaging in 
the repackaging of prescription drugs at the permitted establishment; 





pharmaceuticals that would pose a significant danger to the public health if 
manufactured at a separate establishment address from the nuclear pharmacy from 
which the prescription drugs are dispensed. The department may also issue a retail 
pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit to the address of a community 
pharmacy licensed under chapter 465 which does not meet the definition of a closed 
pharmacy in s. 499.003. 

(e)A county or municipality may not issue an occupational license for any licensing 
period beginning on or after October 1, 2003, for any establishment that requires a 

permit pursuant to this part, unless the establishment exhibits a current permit 
issued by the department for the establishment. Upon presentation of the requisite 
permit issued by the department, an occupational license may be issued by the 
municipality or county in which application is made. The department shall furnish to 
local agencies responsible for issuing occupational licenses a current list of all 
establishments licensed pursuant to this part. 

(2)Notwithstanding subsection (6), a permitted person in good standing may 
change the type of permit issued to that person by completing a new application for 
the requested permit, paying the amount of the difference in the permit fees if the 
fee for the new permit is more than the fee for the original permit, and meeting the 
applicable permitting conditions for the new permit type. The new permit expires on 
the expiration date of the original permit being changed; however, a new permit for 
a prescription drug wholesale distributor, an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale 
distributor, or a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor shall expire on the 
expiration date of the original permit or 1 year after the date of issuance of the new 
permit, whichever is earlier. A refund may not be issued if the fee for the new permit 
is less than the fee that was paid for the original permit. 

(3)A written application for a permit or to renew a permit must be filed with the 
department on forms furnished by the department. The department shall establish, 
by rule, the form and content of the application to obtain or renew a permit. The 
applicant must submit to the department with the application a statement that 
swears or affirms that the information is true and correct. 

(4)(a)Except for a permit for a prescription drug wholesale distributor or an out-of- 
state prescription drug wholesale distributor, an application for a permit must 
include: 

1.The name, full business address, and telephone number of the applicant; 
2.All trade or business names used by the applicant; 
3.The address, telephone numbers, and the names of contact persons for each 

facility used by the applicant for the storage, handling, and distribution of 
prescription drugs; 

4.The type of ownership or operation, such as a partnership, corporation, or sole 
proprietorship; and 

5.The names of the owner and the operator of the establishment, including: 
a.If an individual, the name of the individual; 
b.If a partnership, the name of each partner and the name of the partnership; 
c.If a corporation, the name and title of each corporate officer and director, the 

corporate names, and the name of the state of incorporation; 
d.If a sole proprietorship, the full name of the sole proprietor and the name of the 

business entity; 
e.If a limited liability company, the name of each member, the name of each 

manager, the name of the limited liability company, and the name of the state in 
which the limited liability company was organized; and 

f.Any other relevant information that the department requires. 



(b)Upon approval of the application by the department and payment of the 
required fee, the department shall issue a permit to the applicant, if the applicant 
meets the requirements of this part and rules adopted under this part. 

(c)Any change in information required under paragraph (a) must be submitted to 
the department before the change occurs. 

(d)The department shall consider, at a minimum, the following factors in reviewing 
the qualifications of persons to be permitted under this part: 

1.The applicant's having been found guilty, regardless of adjudication, in a court of 
this state or other jurisdiction, of a violation of a law that directly relates to a drug, 
device, or cosmetic. A plea of nob contendere constitutes a finding of guilt for 
purposes of this subparagraph. 

2.The applicant's having been disciplined by a regulatory agency in any state for 
any offense that would constitute a violation of this part. 

3.Any felony conviction of the applicant under a federal, state, or local law; 
4.The applicant's past experience in manufacturing or distributing drugs, devices, 

or cosmetics; 
5.The furnishing by the applicant of false or fraudulent material in any application 

made in connection with manufacturing or distributing drugs, devices, or cosmetics; 
6.Suspension or revocation by a federal, state, or local government of any permit 

currently or previously held by the applicant for the manufacture or distribution of 
any drugs, devices, or cosmetics; 

7.Compliance with permitting requirements under any previously granted permits; 
8.Compliance with requirements to maintain or make available to the state 

permitting authority or to federal, state, or local law enforcement officials those 
records required under this section; and 

9.Any other factors or qualifications the department considers relevant to and 
consistent with the public health and safety. 

(5)Except for a permit for a prescription drug wholesale distributor or an out-of- 
state prescription drug wholesale distributor: 

(a)The department shall adopt rules for the biennial renewal of permits. 
(b)The department shall renew a permit upon receipt of the renewal application 

and renewal fee if the applicant meets the requirements established under this part 
and the rules adopted under this part. 

(c)A permit, unless sooner suspended or revoked, automatically expires 2 years 
after the last day of the anniversary month in which the permit was originally issued. 
A permit issued under this part may be renewed by making application for renewal 
on forms furnished by the department and paying the appropriate fees. If a renewal 
application and fee are submitted and postmarked after the expiration date of the 
permit, the permit may be renewed only upon payment of a late renewal delinquent 
fee of $100, plus the required renewal fee, not later than 60 days after the 
expiration date. 

(d)Failure to renew a permit in accordance with this section precludes any future 
renewal of that permit. If a permit issued pursuant to this part has expired and 
cannot be renewed, before an establishment may engage in activities that require a 

permit under this part, the establishment must submit an application for a new 
permit, pay the applicable application fee, the initial permit fee, and all applicable 
penalties, and be issued a new permit by the department. 

(6)A permit issued by the department is nontransferable. Each permit is valid only 
for the person or governmental unit to which it is issued and is not subject to sale, 
assignment, or other transfer, voluntarily or involuntarily; nor is a permit valid for 
any establishment other than the establishment for which it was originally issued. 



(a)A person permitted under this part must notify the department before making a 

change of address. The department shall set a change of location fee not to exceed 
$100. 

(b)1.An application for a new permit is required when a majority of the ownership 
or controlling interest of a permitted establishment is transferred or assigned or 
when a lessee agrees to undertake or provide services to the extent that legal 
liability for operation of the establishment will rest with the lessee. The application 
for the new permit must be made before the date of the sale, transfer, assignment, 
or lease. 

2.A permittee that is authorized to distribute prescription drugs may transfer such 
drugs to the new owner or lessee under subparagraph 1. only after the new owner or 
lessee has been approved for a permit to distribute prescription drugs. 

(c)If an establishment permitted under this part closes, the owner must notify the 
department in writing before the effective date of closure and must: 

1.Return the permit to the department; 
2.If the permittee is authorized to distribute prescription drugs, indicate the 

disposition of such drugs, including the name, address, and inventory, and provide 
the name and address of a person to contact regarding access to records that are 
required to be maintained under this part. Transfer of ownership of prescription 
drugs may be made only to persons authorized to possess prescription drugs under 
this part. 

The department may revoke the permit of any person that fails to comply with the 
requirements of this subsection. 

(7)A permit must be posted in a conspicuous place on the licensed premises. 
(8)An application for a permit or to renew a permit for a prescription drug 

wholesale distributor or an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor 
submitted to the department must include: 

(a)The name, full business address, and telephone number of the applicant. 
(b)All trade or business names used by the applicant. 
(c)The address, telephone numbers, and the names of contact persons for each 

facility used by the applicant for the storage, handling, and distribution of 
prescription drugs. 

(d)The type of ownership or operation, such as a partnership, corporation, or sole 
proprietorship. 

(e)The names of the owner and the operator of the establishment, including: 
1.If an individual, the name of the individual. 
2.If a partnership, the name of each partner and the name of the partnership. 
3.If a corporation: 
a.The name, address, and title of each corporate officer and director. 
b.The name and address of the corporation, resident agent of the corporation, the 

resident agent's address, and the corporation's state of incorporation. 
c.The name and address of each shareholder of the corporation that owns 5 

percent or more of the outstanding stock of the corporation. 
4.If a sole proprietorship, the full name of the sole proprietor and the name of the 

business entity. 
5.If a limited liability company: 
a.The name and address of each member. 
b.The name and address of each manager. 
c.The name and address of the limited liability company, the resident agent of the 

limited liability company, and the name of the state in which the limited liability 
company was organized. 



(f)If applicable, the name and address of each member of the affiliated group of 
which the applicant is a member. 

(g)1.For an application for a new permit, the estimated annual dollar volume of 
prescription drug sales of the applicant, the estimated annual percentage of the 
applicant's total company sales that are prescription drugs, the applicant's estimated 
annual total dollar volume of purchases of prescription drugs, and the applicant's 
estimated annual total dollar volume of prescription drug purchases directly from 
manufacturers. 

2.For an application to renew a permit, the total dollar volume of prescription drug 
sales in the previous year, the total dollar volume of prescription drug sales made in 
the previous 6 months, the percentage of total company sales that were prescription 
drugs in the previous year, the total dollar volume of purchases of prescription drugs 
in the previous year, and the total dollar volume of prescription drug purchases 
directly from manufacturers in the previous year. 

Such portions of the information required pursuant to this paragraph which are a trade secret, 
as defined in s. 812.081, shall be maintained by the department as trade secret information is 
required to be maintained under s. 499.051. 

(h)The tax year of the applicant. 
(i)A copy of the deed for the property on which applicant's establishment is 

located, if the establishment is owned by the applicant, or a copy of the applicant's 
lease for the property on which applicant's establishment is located that has an 
original term of not less than 1 calendar year, if the establishment is not owned by 
the applicant. 

(j)A list of all licenses and permits issued to the applicant by any other state which 
authorize the applicant to purchase or possess prescription drugs. 

(k)The name of the manager of the establishment that is applying for the permit or 
to renew the permit, the next four highest ranking employees responsible for 
prescription drug wholesale operations for the establishment, and the name of all 
affiliated parties for the establishment, together with the personal information 
statement and fingerprints required pursuant to subsection (9) for each of such 
persons. 

(l)The name of each of the applicant's designated representatives as required by 
subsection (16), together with the personal information statement and fingerprints 
required pursuant to subsection (9) for each such person. 

(m)For an applicant that is a secondary wholesale distributor, each of the 
following: 

l.A personal background information statement containing the background 
information and fingerprints required pursuant to subsection (9) for each person 
named in the applicant's response to paragraphs (k) and (I) and for each affiliated 
party of the applicant. 

2.If any of the five largest shareholders of the corporation seeking the permit is a 

corporation, the name, address, and title of each corporate officer and director of 
each such corporation; the name and address of such corporation; the name of such 
corporation's resident agent, such corporation's resident agent's address, and such 
corporation's state of its incorporation; and the name and address of each 
shareholder of such corporation that owns 5 percent or more of the stock of such 
corporation. 

3.The name and address of all financial institutions in which the applicant has an 
account which is used to pay for the operation of the establishment or to pay for 
drugs purchased for the establishment, together with the names of all persons that 
are authorized signatories on such accounts. The portions of the information required 



pursuant to this subparagraph which are a trade secret, as defined in s. 812.081, 
shall be maintained by the department as trade secret information is required to be 
maintained under s. 499.051. 

4.The sources of all funds and the amounts of such funds used to purchase or 
finance purchases of prescription drugs or to finance the premises on which the 
establishment is to be located. 

5.If any of the funds identified in subparagraph 4. were borrowed, copies of all 
promissory notes or loans used to obtain such funds. 

(n)Any other relevant information that the department requires, including, but not 
limited to, any information related to whether the applicant satisfies the definition of 
a primary wholesale distributor or a secondary wholesale distributor. 

(o)Documentation of the credentialing policies and procedures required by s. 
499.0121(15). 

(9)(a)Each person required by subsection (8) to provide a personal information 
statement and fingerprints shall provide the following information to the department 
on forms prescribed by the department: 

1.The person's places of residence for the past 7 years. 
2.The person's date and place of birth. 
3.The person's occupations, positions of employment, and offices held during the 

past 7 years. 
4.The principal business and address of any business, corporation, or other 

organization in which each such office of the person was held or in which each such 
occupation or position of employment was carried on. 

5.Whether the person has been, during the past 7 years, the subject of any 
proceeding for the revocation of any license and, if so, the nature of the proceeding 
and the disposition of the proceeding. 

6.Whether, during the past 7 years, the person has been enjoined, temporarily or 
permanently, by a court of competent jurisdiction from violating any federal or state 
law regulating the possession, control, or distribution of prescription drugs, together 
with details concerning any such event. 

7.A description of any involvement by the person with any business, including any 
investments, other than the ownership of stock in a publicly traded company or 
mutual fund, during the past 7 years, which manufactured, administered, prescribed, 
distributed, or stored pharmaceutical products and any lawsuits in which such 
businesses were named as a party. 

8.A description of any felony criminal offense of which the person, as an adult, was 
found guilty, regardless of whether adjudication of guilt was withheld or whether the 
person pled guilty or nob contendere. A criminal offense committed in another 
jurisdiction which would have been a felony in this state must be reported. If the 
person indicates that a criminal conviction is under appeal and submits a copy of the 
notice of appeal of that criminal offense, the applicant must, within 15 days after the 
disposition of the appeal, submit to the department a copy of the final written order 
of disposition. 

9.A photograph of the person taken in the previous 30 days. 
10.A set of fingerprints for the person on a form and under procedures specified by 

the department, together with payment of an amount equal to the costs incurred by 
the department for the criminal record check of the person. 

11.The name, address, occupation, and date and place of birth for each member of 
the person's immediate family who is 18 years of age or older. As used in this 
subparagraph, the term "member of the person's immediate family" includes the 
person's spouse, children, parents, siblings, the spouses of the person's children, and 
the spouses of the person's siblings. 

12.Any other relevant information that the department requires. 





(m)The applicant or any affiliated party receives, directly or indirectly, financial 
support and assistance from a person who was an affiliated party of a permittee 
whose permit was subject to discipline or was suspended or revoked, other than 
through the ownership of stock in a publicly traded company or a mutual fund. 

(n)The applicant or any affiliated party receives, directly or indirectly, financial 
support and assistance from a person who has been found guilty of any violation of 
this part or chapter 465, chapter 501, or chapter 893, any rules adopted under this 
part or those chapters, any federal or state drug law, or any felony where the 
underlying facts related to drugs, regardless of whether the person has been 
pardoned, had her or his civil rights restored, or had adjudication withheld, other 
than through the ownership of stock in a publicly traded company or a mutual fund. 

(o)The applicant for renewal of a permit under s. 499.01(2)(d) or (e) has not 
actively engaged in the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs, as demonstrated 
by the regular and systematic distribution of prescription drugs throughout the year 
as evidenced by not fewer than 12 wholesale distributions in the previous year and 
not fewer than three wholesale distributions in the previous 6 months. 

(p)Information obtained in response to s. 499.01(2)(d) or (e) demonstrates it 
would not be in the best interest of the public health, safety, and welfare to issue a 

permit. 
(q)The applicant does not possess the financial standing and business experience 

for the successful operation of the applicant. 
(r)The applicant or any affiliated party has failed to comply with the requirements 

for manufacturing or distributing prescription drugs under this part, similar federal 
laws, similar laws in other states, or the rules adopted under such laws. 

(11)Upon approval of the application by the department and payment of the 
required fee, the department shall issue or renew a prescription drug wholesale 
distributor or an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor permit to the 
app Ii cant. 

(12)For a permit for a prescription drug wholesale distributor or an out-of-state 
prescription drug wholesale distributor: 

(a)The department shall adopt rules for the annual renewal of permits. At least 90 
days before the expiration of a permit, the department shall forward a permit 
renewal notification and renewal application to the prescription drug wholesale 
distributor or out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor at the mailing 
address of the permitted establishment on file with the department. The permit 
renewal notification must state conspicuously the date on which the permit for the 
establishment will expire and that the establishment may not operate unless the 
permit for the establishment is renewed timely. 

(b)A permit, unless sooner suspended or revoked, automatically expires 1 year 
after the last day of the anniversary month in which the permit was originally issued. 
A permit may be renewed by making application for renewal on forms furnished by 
the department and paying the appropriate fees. If a renewal application and fee are 
submitted and postmarked after 45 days prior to the expiration date of the permit, 
the permit may be renewed only upon payment of a late renewal fee of $100, plus 
the required renewal fee. A permittee that has submitted a renewal application in 
accordance with this paragraph may continue to operate under its permit, unless the 
permit is suspended or revoked, until final disposition of the renewal application. 

(c)Failure to renew a permit in accordance with this section precludes any future 
renewal of that permit. If a permit issued pursuant to this section has expired and 
cannot be renewed, before an establishment may engage in activities that require a 

permit under this part, the establishment must submit an application for a new 
permit; pay the applicable application fee, initial permit fee, and all applicable 
penalties; and be issued a new permit by the department. 



(13)A person that engages in wholesale distribution of prescription drugs in this 
state must have a wholesale distributor's permit issued by the department, except as 
noted in this section. Each establishment must be separately permitted except as 
noted in this subsection. 

(a)A separate establishment permit is not required when a permitted prescription 
drug wholesale distributor consigns a prescription drug to a pharmacy that is 
permitted under chapter 465 and located in this state, provided that: 

1.The consignor wholesale distributor notifies the department in writing of the 
contract to consign prescription drugs to a pharmacy along with the identity and 
location of each consignee pharmacy; 

2.The pharmacy maintains its permit under chapter 465; 
3.The consignor wholesale distributor, which has no legal authority to dispense 

prescription drugs, complies with all wholesale distribution requirements of ss. 
499.0121 and 499.01212 with respect to the consigned drugs and maintains records 
documenting the transfer of title or other completion of the wholesale distribution of 
the consigned prescription drugs; 

4.The distribution of the prescription drug is otherwise lawful under this chapter 
and other applicable law; 

5.Open packages containing prescription drugs within a pharmacy are the 
responsibility of the pharmacy, regardless of how the drugs are titled; and 

6.The pharmacy dispenses the consigned prescription drug in accordance with the 
limitations of its permit under chapter 465 or returns the consigned prescription drug 
to the consignor wholesale distributor. In addition, a person who holds title to 
prescription drugs may transfer the drugs to a person permitted or licensed to 
handle the reverse distribution or destruction of drugs. Any other distribution by and 
means of the consigned prescription drug by any person, not limited to the consignor 
wholesale distributor or consignee pharmacy, to any other person is prohibited. 

(b)A wholesale distributor's permit is not required for the one-time transfer of title 
of a pharmacy's lawfully acquired prescription drug inventory by a pharmacy with a 

valid permit issued under chapter 465 to a consignor prescription drug wholesale 
distributor, permitted under this chapter, in accordance with a written consignment 
agreement between the pharmacy and that wholesale distributor if the permitted 
pharmacy and the permitted prescription drug wholesale distributor comply with all 
of the provisions of paragraph (a) and the prescription drugs continue to be within 
the permitted pharmacy's inventory for dispensing in accordance with the limitations 
of the pharmacy permit under chapter 465. A consignor drug wholesale distributor 
may not use the pharmacy as a wholesale distributor through which it distributes the 
prescription drugs to other pharmacies. Nothing in this section is intended to prevent 
a wholesale distributor from obtaining this inventory in the event of nonpayment by 
the pharmacy. 

(c)A separate establishment permit is not required when a permitted prescription 
drug wholesale distributor operates temporary transit storage facilities for the sole 
purpose of storage, for up to 16 hours, of a delivery of prescription drugs when the 
wholesale distributor was temporarily unable to complete the delivery to the 
recipient. 

(d)The department shall require information from each wholesale distributor as 
part of the permit and renewal of such permit, as required under this section. 

(14)Personnel employed in wholesale distribution must have appropriate education 
and experience to enable them to perform their duties in compliance with state 
permitting requirements. 

(15)The name of a permittee or establishment on a prescription drug wholesale 
distributor permit or an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor permit 
may not include any indicia of attainment of any educational degree, any indicia that 





12, 13, 14, ch. 2003-155; s. 85, ch. 2004-5; s. 3, ch. 2004-328; S. 2, ch. 2005-248; 
ss. 2, 3, ch. 2006-92; s. 22, ch. 2007-6; ss. 2, 10, 11, 28, ch. 2008-207; s. 61, ch. 
2009-21; s. 17, ch. 2011-141; s. 67, ch. 2012-5. 
Note.—Subsections (1)-(7) former s. 499.01(2)-(8). 

499.Ol2OlAgency for Health Care Administration review and use of statute and 
rule violation or compliance data.—Notwithstanding any other provisions of law to 
the contrary, the Agency for Health Care Administration may not: 

(1)Review or use any violation or alleged violation of s. 499.0121(6) or s. 
499.01212, or any rules adopted under those sections, as a ground for denying or 
withholding any payment of a Medicaid reimbursement to a pharmacy licensed under 
chapter 465; or 

(2)Review or use compliance with s. 499.0121(6) or s. 499.01212, or any rules 
adopted under those sections, as the subject of any audit of Medicaid-related records 
held by a pharmacy licensed under chapter 465. 
History.—s. 4, ch. 2005-248; s. 12, ch. 2008-207. 

499.Ol2lStorage and handling of prescription drugs; recordkeeping.—The 
department shall adopt rules to implement this section as necessary to protect the 
public health, safety, and welfare. Such rules shall include, but not be limited to, 
requirements for the storage and handling of prescription drugs and for the 
establishment and maintenance of prescription drug distribution records. 

(1)ESTABLISHMENTS.—An establishment at which prescription drugs are stored, 
warehoused, handled, held, offered, marketed, or displayed must: 

(a)Be of suitable size and construction to facilitate cleaning, maintenance, and 
proper operations; 

(b)Have storage areas designed to provide adequate lighting, ventilation, 
temperature, sanitation, humidity, space, equipment, and security conditions; 

(c)Have a quarantine area for storage of prescription drugs that are outdated, 
damaged, deteriorated, misbranded, or adulterated, or that are in immediate or 
sealed, secondary containers that have been opened; 

(d)Be maintained in a clean and orderly condition; and 
(e)Be free from infestation by insects, rodents, birds, or vermin of any kind. 
(2)SECURITY.— 
(a)An establishment that is used for wholesale drug distribution must be secure 

from unauthorized entry. 
1.Access from outside the premises must be kept to a minimum and be well- 

controlled. 
2.The outside perimeter of the premises must be well-lighted. 
3.Entry into areas where prescription drugs are held must be limited to authorized 

personnel. 
(b)An establishment that is used for wholesale drug distribution must be equipped 

with: 
1.An alarm system to detect entry after hours; however, the department may 

exempt by rule establishments that only hold a permit as prescription drug wholesale 
distributor-brokers and establishments that only handle medical oxygen; and 

2.A security system that will provide suitable protection against theft and 
diversion. When appropriate, the security system must provide protection against 
theft or diversion that is facilitated or hidden by tampering with computers or 
electronic records. 

(c)Any vehicle that contains prescription drugs must be secure from unauthorized 
access to the prescription drugs in the vehicle. 

(3)STORAGE.—All prescription drugs shall be stored at appropriate temperatures 
and under appropriate conditions in accordance with requirements, if any, in the 
labeling of such drugs, or with requirements in the official compendium. 



for the 
at the 

that and are 
or and 

or to 
prescription 

in must be for 
prescription drugs. 

(4)EXAMINATION OF MATERIALS AND RECORDS.— 
(a)Upon receipt, each outside shipping container must be visually examined for 

identity and to prevent the acceptance of contaminated prescription drugs that are 
otherwise unfit for distribution. This examination must be adequate to reveal 
container damage that would suggest possible contamination or other damage to the 
contents. 

(b)Each outgoing shipment must be carefully inspected for identity of the 
prescription drug products and to ensure that there is no delivery of prescription 
drugs that have expired or been damaged in storage or held under improper 
conditions. 

(c)The recordkeeping requirements in subsection (6) must be followed for all 
incoming and outgoing prescription drugs. 

(d)Upon receipt, a wholesale distributor must review records required under this 
section for the acquisition of prescription drugs for accuracy and completeness, 
considering the total facts and circumstances surrounding the transactions and the 
wholesale distributors involved. This includes authenticating each transaction listed 
on a pedigree paper, as defined in s. 499.003(37). 

(5)RETURNED, DAMAGED, OR OUTDATED PRESCRIPTION DRUGS.— 
(a)1.Prescription drugs that are outdated, damaged, deteriorated, misbranded, or 

adulterated must be quarantined and physically separated from other prescription 
drugs until they are destroyed or returned to their supplier. A quarantine section 
must be separate and apart from other sections where prescription drugs are stored 
so that prescription drugs in this section are not confused with usable prescription 
drugs. 

2.Prescription drugs must be examined at least every 12 months, and drugs for 
which the expiration date has passed must be removed and quarantined. 

(b)Any prescription drugs of which the immediate or sealed outer containers or 
sealed secondary containers have been opened or used must be identified as such 
and must be quarantined and physically separated from other prescription drugs 
until they are destroyed or returned to the supplier. 

(c)If the conditions under which a prescription drug has been returned cast doubt 
on the drug's safety, identity, strength, quality, or purity, the drug must be 
destroyed or returned to the supplier, unless examination, testing, or other 
investigation proves that the drug meets appropriate standards of safety, identity, 
strength, quality, and purity. In determining whether the conditions under which a 

drug has been returned cast doubt on the drug's safety, identity, strength, quality, 
or purity, the wholesale distributor must consider, among other things, the 
conditions under which the drug has been held, stored, or shipped before or during 
its return and the conditions of the drug and its container, carton, or labeling, as a 

result of storage or shipping. 
(d)The recordkeeping requirements in subsection (6) must be followed for all 

outdated, damaged, deteriorated, misbranded, or adulterated prescription drugs. 
(6)RECORDKEEPING.—The department shall adopt rules that require keeping such 

records of prescription drugs as are necessary for the protection of the public health. 



(a)Wholesale distributors must establish and maintain inventories and records of 
all transactions regarding the receipt and distribution or other disposition of 
prescription drugs. These records must provide a complete audit trail from receipt to 
sale or other disposition, be readily retrievable for inspection, and include, at a 

minimum, the following information: 
1.The source of the drugs, including the name and principal address of the seller or 

transferor, and the address of the location from which the drugs were shipped; 
2.The name, principal address, and state license permit or registration number of 

the person authorized to purchase prescription drugs; 
3.The name, strength, dosage form, and quantity of the drugs received and 

distributed or disposed of; 
4.The dates of receipt and distribution or other disposition of the drugs; and 
5.Any financial documentation supporting the transaction. 
(b)Inventories and records must be made available for inspection and 

photocopying by authorized federal, state, or local officials for a period of 2 years 
following disposition of the drugs or 3 years after the creation of the records, 
whichever period is longer. 

(c)Records described in this section that are kept at the inspection site or that can 
be immediately retrieved by computer or other electronic means must be readily 
available for authorized inspection during the retention period. Records that are kept 
at a central location outside of this state and that are not electronically retrievable 
must be made available for inspection within 2 working days after a request by an 
authorized official of a federal, state, or local law enforcement agency. Records that 
are maintained at a central location within this state must be maintained at an 
establishment that is permitted pursuant to this part and must be readily available. 

(d)Each manufacturer or repackager of medical devices, over-the-counter drugs, 
or cosmetics must maintain records that include the name and principal address of 
the seller or transferor of the product, the address of the location from which the 
product was shipped, the date of the transaction, the name and quantity of the 
product involved, and the name and principal address of the person who purchased 
the product. 

(e)When pedigree papers are required by this part, a wholesale distributor must 
maintain the pedigree papers separate and distinct from other records required 
under this part. 

(7)PRESCRIPTION DRUG PURCHASE LIST.—Each wholesale distributor, except for 
a manufacturer, shall annually provide the department with a written list of all 
wholesale distributors and manufacturers from whom the wholesale distributor 
purchases prescription drugs. A wholesale distributor, except a manufacturer, shall 
notify the department not later than 10 days after any change to either list. Such 
portions of the information required pursuant to this subsection which are a trade 
secret, as defined in s. 812.081, shall be maintained by the department as trade 
secret information is required to be maintained under s. 499.051. 

(8) WRITTEN POLICIES AND PROCEDURES.—Wholesale distributors must establish, 
maintain, and adhere to written policies and procedures, which must be followed for 
the receipt, security, storage, inventory, and distribution of prescription drugs, 
including policies and procedures for identifying, recording, and reporting losses or 
thefts, and for correcting all errors and inaccuracies in inventories. Wholesale 
distributors must include in their written policies and procedures: 

(a)A procedure whereby the oldest approved stock of a prescription drug product is 
distributed first. The procedure may permit deviation from this requirement, if the 
deviation is temporary and appropriate. 



(b)A procedure to be followed for handling recalls and withdrawals of prescription 
drugs. Such procedure must be adequate to deal with recalls and withdrawals due 
to: 

1.Any action initiated at the request of the Food and Drug Administration or any 
other federal, state, or local law enforcement or other government agency, including 
the department. 

2.Any voluntary action by the manufacturer or repackager to remove defective or 
potentially defective drugs from the market; or 

3.Any action undertaken to promote public health and safety by replacing existing 
merchandise with an improved product or new package design. 

(c)A procedure to ensure that wholesale distributors prepare for, protect against, 
and handle any crisis that affects security or operation of any facility if a strike, fire, 
flood, or other natural disaster, or a local, state, or national emergency, occurs. 

(d)A procedure to ensure that any outdated prescription drugs are segregated from 
other drugs and returned to the manufacturer or repackager or destroyed. This 
procedure must provide for written documentation of the disposition of outdated 
prescription drugs. This documentation must be maintained for 2 years after 
disposition of the outdated drugs. 

(9)RESPONSIBLE PERSONS.—Wholesale distributors must establish and maintain 
lists of officers, directors, managers, designated representatives, and other persons 
in charge of wholesale drug distribution, storage, and handling, including a 

description of their duties and a summary of their qualifications. 
(10)COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL LAW.—A wholesale 

distributor must operate in compliance with applicable federal, state, and local laws 
and regulations. 

(a)A wholesale distributor must allow the department and authorized federal, 
state, and local officials to enter and inspect its premises and delivery vehicles, and 
to audit its records and written operating procedures, at reasonable times and in a 

reasonable manner, to the extent authorized by law. 
(b)A wholesale distributor that deals in controlled substances must register with 

the Drug Enforcement Administration and must comply with all applicable state, 
local, and federal laws. A wholesale distributor that distributes any substance 
controlled under chapter 893 must notify the department when registering with the 
Drug Enforcement Administration pursuant to that chapter and must provide the 
department with its DEA number. 

(11)SALVAGING AND REPROCESSING.—A wholesale distributor is subject to any 
applicable federal, state, or local laws or regulations that relate to prescription drug 
product salvaging or reprocessing. 

(12)SHIPPING AND TRANSPORTATION.—The person responsible for shipment and 
transportation of a prescription drug in a wholesale distribution may use a common 
carrier; its own vehicle or employee acting within the scope of employment if 
authorized under s. 499.03 for the possession of prescription drugs in this state; or, 
in the case of a prescription drug intended for domestic distribution, an independent 
contractor who must be the agent of the authorized seller or recipient responsible for 
shipping and transportation as set forth in a written contract between the parties. A 
person selling a prescription drug for export must obtain documentation, such as a 

validated airway bill, bill of lading, or other appropriate documentation that the 
prescription drug was exported. A person responsible for shipping or transporting 
prescription drugs is not required to maintain documentation from a common carrier 
that the designated recipient received the prescription drugs; however, the person 
must obtain such documentation from the common carrier and make it available to 
the department upon request of the department. 



(13)DUE DILIGENCE OF SUPPLIERS.—Prior to purchasing any prescription drugs 
from another wholesale distributor, a prescription drug wholesale distributor, an out- 
of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor, or a prescription drug repackager 
must: 

(a)Enter an agreement with the selling wholesale distributor by which the selling 
wholesale distributor will indemnify the purchasing wholesale distributor for any loss 
caused to the purchasing wholesale distributor related to the purchase of drugs from 
the selling wholesale distributor which are determined to be counterfeit or to have 
been distributed in violation of any federal or state law governing the distribution of 
drugs. 

(b)Determine that the selling wholesale distributor has insurance coverage of not 
less than the greater of 1 percent of the amount of total dollar volume of the 
prescription drug sales reported to the department under s. 499.012(8)(g) or 
$500,000; however the coverage need not exceed $2 million. 

(c)Obtain information from the selling wholesale distributor, including the length of 
time the selling wholesale distributor has been licensed in this state, a copy of the 
selling wholesale distributor's licenses or permits, and background information 
concerning the ownership of the selling wholesale distributor, including the 
experience of the wholesale distributor in the wholesale distribution of prescription 
drugs. 

(d)Verify that the selling wholesale distributor's Florida permit is valid. 
(e)Inspect the selling wholesale distributor's licensed establishment to document 

that it has a policies and procedures manual relating to the distribution of drugs, the 
appropriate temperature controlled environment for drugs requiring temperature 
control, an alarm system, appropriate access restrictions, and procedures to ensure 
that records related to the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs are 
maintained as required by law: 

1.Before purchasing any drug from the wholesale distributor, and at least once 
each subsequent year; or 

2.Before purchasing any drug from the wholesale distributor, and each subsequent 
year obtain a complete copy of the most recent inspection report for the 
establishment which was prepared by the department or the regulatory authority 
responsible for wholesale distributors in the state in which the establishment is 
located. 

(14)DISTRIBUTION REPORTING.—Each prescription drug wholesale distributor, 
out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor, retail pharmacy drug wholesale 
distributor, manufacturer, or repackager that engages in the wholesale distribution of 
controlled substances as defined in s. 893.02 shall submit a report to the department 
of its receipts and distributions of controlled substances listed in Schedule II, 
Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V as provided in s. 893.03. Wholesale 
distributor facilities located within this state shall report all transactions involving 
controlled substances, and wholesale distributor facilities located outside this state 
shall report all distributions to entities located in this state. If the prescription drug 
wholesale distributor, out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor, retail 
pharmacy drug wholesale distributor, manufacturer, or repackager does not have 
any controlled substance distributions for the month, a report shall be sent indicating 
that no distributions occurred in the period. The report shall be submitted monthly 
by the 20th of the next month, in the electronic format used for controlled substance 
reporting to the Automation of Reports and Consolidated Orders System division of 
the federal Drug Enforcement Administration. Submission of electronic data must be 
made in a secured Internet environment that allows for manual or automated 
transmission. Upon successful transmission, an acknowledgment page must be 
displayed to confirm receipt. The report must contain the following information: 



(a)The federal Drug Enforcement Administration registration number of the 
wholesale distributing location. 

(b)The federal Drug Enforcement Administration registration number of the entity 
to which the drugs are distributed or from which the drugs are received. 

(c)The transaction code that indicates the type of transaction. 
(d)The National Drug Code identifier of the product and the quantity distributed or 

received. 
(e)The Drug Enforcement Administration Form 222 number or Controlled 

Substance Ordering System Identifier on all Schedule II transactions. 
(f)The date of the transaction. 

The department must share the reported data with the Department of Law Enforcement and 
local law enforcement agencies upon request and must monitor purchasing to identify 
purchasing levels that are inconsistent with the purchasing entity's clinical needs. The 
Department of Law Enforcement shall investigate purchases at levels that are inconsistent with 
the purchasing entity's clinical needs to determine whether violations of chapter 893 have 
occurred. 

(15)DUE DILIGENCE OF PURCHASERS.— 
(a)Each prescription drug wholesale distributor, out-of-state prescription drug 

wholesale distributor, and retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor must establish 
and maintain policies and procedures to credential physicians licensed under chapter 
458, chapter 459, chapter 461, or chapter 466 and pharmacies that purchase or 
otherwise receive from the wholesale distributor controlled substances listed in 
Schedule II or Schedule III as provided in s. 893.03. The prescription drug wholesale 
distributor, out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor, or retail pharmacy 
drug wholesale distributor shall maintain records of such credentialing and make the 
records available to the department upon request. Such credentialing must, at a 

minimum, include: 
l.A determination of the clinical nature of the receiving entity, including any 

specialty practice area. 
2.A review of the receiving entity's history of Schedule II and Schedule III 

controlled substance purchasing from the wholesale distributor. 
3.A determination that the receiving entity's Schedule II and Schedule III 

controlled substance purchasing history, if any, is consistent with and reasonable for 
that entity's clinical business needs. 

(b)A wholesale distributor must take reasonable measures to identify its 
customers, understand the normal and expected transactions conducted by those 
customers, and identify those transactions that are suspicious in nature. A wholesale 
distributor must establish internal policies and procedures for identifying suspicious 
orders and preventing suspicious transactions. A wholesale distributor must assess 
orders for greater than 5,000 unit doses of any one controlled substance in any one 
month to determine whether the purchase is reasonable. In making such 
assessments, a wholesale distributor may consider the purchasing entity's clinical 
business needs, location, and population served, in addition to other factors 
established in the distributor's policies and procedures. A wholesale distributor must 
report to the department any regulated transaction involving an extraordinary 
quantity of a listed chemical, an uncommon method of payment or delivery, or any 
other circumstance that the regulated person believes may indicate that the listed 
chemical will be used in violation of the law. The wholesale distributor shall maintain 
records that document the report submitted to the department in compliance with 
this paragraph. 



(c)A wholesale distributor may not distribute controlled substances to an entity if 
any criminal history record check for any person associated with that entity shows 
that the person has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere 
to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction related to controlled 
substances, the practice of pharmacy, or the dispensing of medicinal drugs. 

(d)The department shall assess national data from the Automation of Reports and 
Consolidated Orders System of the federal Drug Enforcement Administration, 
excluding Florida data, and identify the national average of grams of hydrocodone, 
morphine, oxycodone, and methadone distributed per pharmacy registrant per 
month in the most recent year for which data is available. The department shall 
report the average for each of these drugs to the Governor, the President of the 
Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives by November 1, 2011. The 
department shall assess the data reported pursuant to subsection (14) and identify 
the statewide average of grams of each benzodiazepine distributed per community 
pharmacy per month. The department shall report the average for each 
benzodiazepine to the Governor, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the 
House of Representatives by November 1, 2011. 
History.—s. 16, ch. 92-69; s. 32, ch. 98-151; ss. 38, 40, ch. 2000-242; ss. 15, 16, 
18, ch. 2003-155; s. 86, ch. 2004-5; s. 4, ch. 2004-328; s. 10, ch. 2004-387; s. 3, 
ch. 2005-248; s. 5, ch. 2006-310; s. 17, ch. 2007-6; s. 13, ch. 2008-207; s. 62, ch. 
2009-21; s. 3, ch. 2009-221; s. 40, ch. 2010-161; s. 18, ch. 2011-141. 
Note.—Paragraph (6)(d) former s. 499.013(4). 

499.0121 iDrug Wholesale Distributor Advisory Council.— 
(1)There is created the Drug Wholesale Distributor Advisory Council within the 

department. The council shall meet at least once each calendar quarter. Staff for the 
council shall be provided by the department. The council shall consist of 11 members 
who shall serve without compensation. The council shall elect a chairperson and a 

vice chairperson annually. 
(2)The Secretary of Business and Professional Regulation or his or her designee 

and the Secretary of Health Care Administration or her or his designee shall be 
members of the council. The Secretary of Business and Professional Regulation shall 
appoint nine additional members to the council who shall be appointed to a term of 4 
years each, as follows: 

(a)Three different persons each of whom is employed by a different prescription 
drug wholesale distributor licensed under this part which operates nationally and is a 

primary wholesale distributor, as defined in s. 499.003(47). 
(b)One person employed by a prescription drug wholesale distributor licensed 

under this part which is a secondary wholesale distributor, as defined in s. 
499.003(52). 

(c)One person employed by a retail pharmacy chain located in this state. 
(d)One person who is a member of the Board of Pharmacy and is a pharmacist 

licensed under chapter 465. 
(e)One person who is a physician licensed pursuant to chapter 458 or chapter 459. 
(f)One person who is an employee of a hospital licensed pursuant to chapter 395 

and is a pharmacist licensed pursuant to chapter 465. 
(g)One person who is an employee of a pharmaceutical manufacturer. 
(3)The council shall review this part and the rules adopted to administer this part 

annually, provide input to the department regarding all proposed rules to administer 
this part, make recommendations to the department to improve the protection of the 
prescription drugs and public health, make recommendations to improve 
coordination with other states' regulatory agencies and the federal government 
concerning the wholesale distribution of drugs, and make recommendations to 



minimize the impact of regulation of the wholesale distribution industry while 
ensuring protection of the public health. 
History.—s. 17, ch. 2003-155; s. 23, ch. 2007-6; s. 105, ch. 2008-6; s. 14, ch. 
2008-207; s. 41, ch. 2010-161; s. 4, ch. 2012-143. 

499.Ol2l2Pedigree paper.— 
(1)APPLICATION.—Each person who is engaged in the wholesale distribution of a 

prescription drug must, prior to or simultaneous with each wholesale distribution, 
provide a pedigree paper to the person who receives the drug. 

(2)FORMAT.—A pedigree paper must contain the following information: 
(a)For the wholesale distribution of a prescription drug within the normal 

distribution chain: 
1.The following statement: "This wholesale distributor purchased the specific unit 

of the prescription drug directly from the manufacturer." 
2.The manufacturer's national drug code identifier and the name and address of 

the wholesale distributor and the purchaser of the prescription drug. 
3.The name of the prescription drug as it appears on the label. 
4.The quantity, dosage form, and strength of the prescription drug. 

The wholesale distributor must also maintain and make available to the department, upon 
request, the point of origin of the prescription drugs, including intracompany transfers, the 
date of the shipment from the manufacturer to the wholesale distributor, the lot numbers of 
such drugs, and the invoice numbers from the manufacturer. 

(b)For all other wholesale distributions of prescription drugs: 
1.The quantity, dosage form, and strength of the prescription drugs. 
2.The lot numbers of the prescription drugs. 
3.The name and address of each owner of the prescription drug and his or her 

signature. 
4.Shipping information, including the name and address of each person certifying 

delivery or receipt of the prescription drug. 
5.An invoice number, a shipping document number, or another number uniquely 

identifying the transaction. 
6.A certification that the recipient wholesale distributor has authenticated the 

pedigree papers. 
7.The unique serialization of the prescription drug, if the manufacturer or 

repackager has uniquely serialized the individual prescription drug unit. 
8.The name, address, telephone number, and, if available, e-mail contact 

information of each wholesale distributor involved in the chain of the prescription 
drug's custody. 

When an affiliated group member obtains title to a prescription drug before distributing the 
prescription drug as the manufacturer under s. 499.003(31 )(e), information regarding the 
distribution between those affiliated group members may be omitted from a pedigree paper 
required under this paragraph for subsequent distributions of that prescription drug. 

(3)EXCEPTIONS.—A pedigree paper is not required for: 
(a)The wholesale distribution of a prescription drug by the manufacturer or by a 

third party logistics provider performing a wholesale distribution of a prescription 
drug for a manufacturer. 

(b)The wholesale distribution of a prescription drug by a freight forwarder within 
the authority of a freight forwarder permit. 

(c)The wholesale distribution of a prescription drug by a limited prescription drug 
veterinary wholesale distributor to a veterinarian. 



(d)The wholesale distribution of a compressed medical gas. 
(e)The wholesale distribution of a veterinary prescription drug. 
(f)A drop shipment, provided: 
1.The wholesale distributor delivers to the recipient of the prescription drug, within 

14 days after the shipment notification from the manufacturer, an invoice and the 
following sworn statement: "This wholesale distributor purchased the specific unit of 
the prescription drug listed on the invoice directly from the manufacturer, and the 
specific unit of prescription drug was shipped by the manufacturer directly to a 

person authorized by law to administer or dispense the legend drug, as defined in s. 
465.003, Florida Statutes, or a member of an affiliated group, with the exception of a 

repackager." The invoice must contain a unique cross-reference to the shipping 
document sent by the manufacturer to the recipient of the prescription drug. 

2.The manufacturer of the prescription drug shipped directly to the recipient 
provides and the recipient of the prescription drug acquires, within 14 days after 
receipt of the prescription drug, a shipping document from the manufacturer that 
contains, at a minimum: 

a.The name and address of the manufacturer, including the point of origin of the 
shipment, and the names and addresses of the wholesale distributor and the 
purchaser. 

b.The name of the prescription drug as it appears on the label. 
c.The quantity, dosage form, and strength of the prescription drug. 
d.The date of the shipment from the manufacturer. 
3.The wholesale distributor maintains and makes available to the department, 

upon request, the lot number of such drug if not contained in the shipping document 
acquired by the recipient. 

4.The wholesale distributor that takes title to, but not possession of, the 
prescription drug is not a member of the affiliated group that receives the 
prescription drug directly from the manufacturer. 

Failure of the manufacturer to provide, the recipient to acquire, or the wholesale distributor to 
deliver the documentation required under this paragraph shall constitute failure to acquire or 
deliver a pedigree paper under ss. 499.005(28) and 499.0051. Forgery by the manufacturer, the 
recipient, or the wholesale distributor of the documentation required to be acquired or 
delivered under this paragraph shall constitute forgery of a pedigree paper under s. 499.0051. 

(g)The wholesale distribution of a prescription drug by a warehouse within an 
affiliated group to a warehouse or retail pharmacy within its affiliated group, 
provided: 

1.Any affiliated group member that purchases or receives a prescription drug from 
outside the affiliated group must receive a pedigree paper if the prescription drug is 
distributed in or into this state and a pedigree paper is required under this section 
and must authenticate the documentation as required in s. 499.0121(4), regardless 
of whether the affiliated group member is directly subject to regulation under this 
part; and 

2.The affiliated group makes available, within 48 hours, to the department on 
request to one or more of its members all records related to the purchase or 
acquisition of prescription drugs by members of the affiliated group, regardless of the 
location where the records are stored, if the prescription drugs were distributed in or 
into this state. 

(h)The repackaging of prescription drugs by a repackager solely for distribution to 
its affiliated group members for the exclusive distribution to and among retail 
pharmacies that are members of the affiliated group to which the repackager is a 

member. 



1.The repackager must: 
a.For all repackaged prescription drugs distributed in or into this state, state in 

writing under oath with each distribution of a repackaged prescription drug to an 
affiliated group member warehouse or repackager: "All repackaged prescription 
drugs are purchased by the affiliated group directly from the manufacturer or from a 

prescription drug wholesale distributor that purchased the prescription drugs directly 
from the manufacturer." 

b.Purchase all prescription drugs it repackages: 
(I)Directly from the manufacturer; or 
(II)From a prescription drug wholesale distributor that purchased the prescription 

drugs directly from the manufacturer. 
c.Maintain records in accordance with this section to document that it purchased 

the prescription drugs directly from the manufacturer or that its prescription drug 
wholesale supplier purchased the prescription drugs directly from the manufacturer. 

2.All members of the affiliated group must provide, within 48 hours, to agents of 
the department on request to one or more of its members records of purchases by 
all members of the affiliated group of prescription drugs that have been repackaged, 
regardless of the location at which the records are stored or at which the repackager 
is located. 

(i)The wholesale distribution of prescription drugs within a medical convenience kit 
if: 

1.The medical convenience kit is assembled in an establishment that is registered 
with the United States Food and Drug Administration as a medical device 
manufacturer; 

2.The medical convenience kit manufacturer purchased the prescription drug 
directly from the manufacturer or from a wholesaler that purchased the prescription 
drug directly from the manufacturer; 

3.The medical convenience kit manufacturer complies with federal law for the 
distribution of the prescription drugs within the kit; and 

4.The drugs contained in the medical kit are: 
a.Intravenous solutions intended for the replenishment of fluids and electrolytes; 
b.Products intended to maintain the equilibrium of water and minerals in the body; 
c.Products intended for irrigation or reconstitution; 
d.Anesthetics; or 
e.Anticoagulants. 

This exemption does not apply to a convenience kit containing any controlled substance that 
appears in a schedule contained in or subject to chapter 893 or the federal Comprehensive 
Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970. 

History.—s. 15, ch. 2008-207; s. 4, ch. 2009-221; s. 24, ch. 2010-161. 
499.0 l5Registration of drugs, devices, and cosmetics; issuance of certificates of 

free sale.— 
(1)(a)Except for those persons exempted from the definition of manufacturer in s. 

499.003(31), any person who manufactures, packages, repackages, labels, or 
relabels a drug, device, or cosmetic in this state must register such drug, device, or 
cosmetic biennially with the department; pay a fee in accordance with the fee 
schedule provided by s. 499.041; and comply with this section. The registrant must 
list each separate and distinct drug, device, or cosmetic at the time of registration. 

(b)The department may not register any product that does not comply with the 
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, as amended, or Title 21 C.F.R. Registration of 
a product by the department does not mean that the product does in fact comply 
with all provisions of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, as amended. 



(2)The department may require the submission of a catalog and specimens of 
labels at the time of application for registration of drugs, devices, and cosmetics 
packaged and prepared in compliance with the federal act, which submission 
constitutes a satisfactory compliance for registration of the products. With respect to 
all other drugs, devices, and cosmetics, the department may require the submission 
of a catalog and specimens of labels at the time of application for registration, but 
the registration will not become effective until the department has examined and 
approved the label of the drug, device, or cosmetic product. This approval or denial 
must include written notification to the manufacturer. 

(3)Except for those persons exempted from the definition of manufacturer in s. 
499.003(31), a person may not sell any product that he or she has failed to register 
in conformity with this section. Such failure to register subjects such drug, device, or 
cosmetic product to seizure and condemnation as provided in s. 499.062, and 
subjects such person to the penalties and remedies provided in this part. 

(4)Unless a registration is renewed, it expires 2 years after the last day of the 
month in which it was issued. The department may issue a stop-sale notice or order 
against a person that is subject to the requirements of this section and that fails to 
comply with this section within 31 days after the date the registration expires. The 
notice or order shall prohibit such person from selling or causing to be sold any 
drugs, devices, or cosmetics covered by this part until he or she complies with the 
requirements of this section. 

(5)A product regulated under this section which is not included in the biennial 
registration may not be sold until it is registered and complies with this section. 

(6)The department may issue a certificate of free sale for any product that is 
required to be registered under this part. 

(7)A product registration is valid only for the company named on the registration 
and located at the address on the registration. A person whose product is registered 
by the department under this section must notify the department before any change 
in the name or address of the establishment to which the product is registered. If a 

person whose product is registered ceases conducting business, the person must 
notify the department before closing the business. 

(8)Notwithstanding any requirements set forth in this part, a manufacturer of 
medical devices that is registered with the federal Food and Drug Administration is 
exempt from this section and s. 499.041(6) if: 

(a)The manufacturer's medical devices are approved for marketing by, or listed 
with the federal Food and Drug Administration in accordance with federal law for 
commercial distribution; or 

(b)The manufacturer subcontracts with a manufacturer of medical devices to 
manufacture components of such devices. 

(9)However, the manufacturer must submit evidence of such registration, listing, 
or approval with its initial application for a permit to do business in this state, as 
required in s. 499.01 and any changes to such information previously submitted at 
the time of renewal of the permit. Evidence of approval, listing, and registration by 
the federal Food and Drug Administration must include: 

(a)For Class II devices, a copy of the premarket notification letter (510K); 
(b)For Class III devices, a Federal Drug Administration premarket approval 

number; 
(c)For a manufacturer who subcontracts with a manufacturer of medical devices to 

manufacture components of such devices, a Federal Drug Administration registration 
number; or 

(d)For a manufacturer of medical devices whose devices are exempt from 
premarket approval by the Federal Drug Administration, a Federal Drug 
Administration registration number. 



History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; S. 110, ch. 83-218; S. 1, ch. 83-265; S. 3, ch. 84-115; 
ss. 20, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 587, ch. 97-103; s. 36, ch. 98-151; s. 1, ch. 99-165; s. 41, 
ch. 2000-242; s. 12, ch. 2000-326; s. 18, ch. 2001-63; s. 33, ch. 2001-89; s. 88, 
ch. 2004-5; s. 18, ch. 2008-207; s. 63, ch. 2009-21. 

499.O23New drugs; sale, manufacture, repackaging, distribution.—A person may 
not sell, offer for sale, hold for sale, manufacture, repackage, distribute, or give 
away any new drug unless an approved application has become effective under s. 
505 of the federal act or unless otherwise permitted by the Secretary of the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services for shipment in interstate 
commerce. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 26, 52, ch. 92-69. 

499.O24Drug product classification.—The department shall adopt rules to classify 
drug products intended for use by humans which the United States Food and Drug 
Administration has not classified in the federal act or the Code of Federal 
Regulations. 

(1)Drug products must be classified as proprietary, prescription, or investigational 
drugs. 

(2)If a product is distributed without required labeling, it is misbranded while held 
for sale. 

(3)Any product that falls under the definition of drug in s. 499.003(19) may be 
classified under the authority of this section. This section does not subject portable 
emergency oxygen inhalators to classification; however, this section does not 
exempt any person from ss. 499.01 and 499.015. 

(4)Any product classified under the authority of this section reverts to the federal 
classification, if different, upon the federal regulation or act becoming effective. 

(5)The department may by rule reclassify drugs subject to this part when such 
classification action is necessary to protect the public health. 

(6)The department may adopt rules that exempt from any labeling or packaging 
requirements of this part drugs classified under this section if those requirements are 
not necessary to protect the public health. 
History.—s. 9, ch. 88-159; s. 1, ch. 89-296; ss. 27, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 589, ch. 97- 
103; s. 42, ch. 2000-242; s. 13, ch. 2000-326; s. 61, ch. 2006-1; s. 106, ch. 2008- 
6; s. 19, ch. 2008-207; s. 5, ch. 2012-143. 

499.O25Drug products in finished, solid, oral dosage form; identification 
requirements.— 

(1)A drug product in finished, solid, oral dosage form for which a prescription is 
required by federal or state law may not be manufactured or distributed within this 
state unless it is clearly and prominently marked or imprinted with an individual 
symbol, number, company name, words, letters, marking, or national drug code, or 
any combination thereof, that identifies the drug product and the manufacturer or 
distributor of the drug product which has the ability to respond to requests for 
information regarding the drug product. 

(2)A manufacturer or distributor must make available to the department on 
request descriptive material that identifies each current imprint used by the 
manufacturer. 

(3)The department, upon application by a manufacturer, may exempt a particular 
drug product from the requirements of subsection (1) on the ground that imprinting 
is not feasible because of the size, texture, or other unique characteristic of the drug 
product. 

(4)This section does not apply to drug products compounded by a pharmacist 
licensed under chapter 465 in a pharmacy operating under a permit issued by the 
Board of Pharmacy. 

(5)The department shall adopt rules for implementing this section. 





manufacturer or distributor makes the distributions in accordance with paragraph (e) 
and carries out the activities described in subsections (4)-(9). 

(e)Drug samples may only be distributed: 
1.To a practitioner authorized by law to prescribe such drugs if the practitioner 

makes a written request for the drug samples; or 
2.At the written request of such a practitioner, to pharmacies of hospitals or to 

pharmacies of other health care entities. The written request for drug samples must 
be made on a form that contains the practitioner's name, address, and professional 
designation, the name, strength, and dosage form of the drug sample requested, the 
quantity of drug samples requested, the name of the manufacturer or distributor of 
the drug sample, the date of the request, and the signature of the practitioner that 
makes the request. 

(4)A drug manufacturer or distributor must store drug samples under the 
conditions described on their labels that will maintain the stability, integrity, and 
effectiveness of the drug samples and will assure that the drug samples remain free 
of contamination, deterioration, and adulteration. 

(5)A drug manufacturer or distributor must conduct, at least annually, a complete 
and accurate inventory of all drug samples in the possession of representatives of 
the manufacturer or distributor. A drug manufacturer or distributor must maintain 
lists of the names and addresses of each of its representatives who distribute drug 
samples and of the sites where drug samples are stored. A drug manufacturer or 
distributor must maintain for at least 3 years records of all drug samples distributed, 
destroyed, or returned to the manufacturer or distributor, of all inventories 
maintained under this subsection, of all thefts or significant losses of drug samples, 
and of all requests made under 'subparagraph 1. for drug samples. The drug 
manufacturer or distributor must make available to the department upon request any 
record or list maintained under this subsection. The department shall provide to the 
Department of Business and Professional Regulation the names of those practitioners 
who have received an excessive or inappropriate quantity of such drugs. 

(6)A drug manufacturer or distributor must notify the department of any significant 
loss of drug samples and any known theft of drug samples. 

(7)A drug manufacturer or distributor must report to the department any 
conviction of itself or of its assigns, agents, employees, or representatives for a 

violation of s. 503(c)(1) of the federal act or of this part because of the sale, 
purchase, or trade of a drug sample or the offer to sell, purchase, or trade a drug 
sample. 

(8)Drug manufacturers or distributors must provide to the department the name 
and telephone number of the individual responsible for responding to a request for 
information regarding drug samples. 

(9)All out-of-date drug samples must be returned to the manufacturer or 
distributor of that drug sample. 

(1O)A manufacturer or distributor may not directly or through its agents, 
employees, or independent contractors, hold, distribute, or otherwise dispose of any 
complimentary drugs or drug samples in this state without first obtaining a 

complimentary drug distributor permit pursuant to this section. 
(11)(a)Application for a permit by a manufacturer or distributor to hold, distribute, 

or otherwise dispose of drugs pursuant to this section must be made on a form 
prescribed by the department and must be accompanied by an application fee in an 
amount not exceeding $250 per year, as is determined by the department. 

(b)A permit issued under this section expires 2 years after the date of issuance, 
unless sooner suspended or revoked. 

(c)A permit is renewable biennially upon the filing of an application for renewal and 
the payment of a renewal fee of not more than $250 per year, as determined by the 



department, if the applicant meets the requirements established by this section and 
the rules adopted under this section. 

(12)The department may suspend or revoke a permit issued under this section, 
after giving notice and an opportunity to be heard pursuant to chapter 120, when: 

(a)Such permit was obtained by misrepresentation or fraud or through a mistake 
of the department. 

(b)The holder of the permit has distributed or disposed of any prescription drug, 
directly or through its agents, employees, or independent contractors, to any person 
not authorized to possess such drug. 

(c)The holder of the permit, or its agents, employees, or independent contractors, 
has distributed or possessed any prescription drug except in the usual course of its 
business. 

(d)The holder of the permit, or its agents, employees, or independent contractors, 
has distributed any prescription drug that is misbranded or adulterated under this 
part. 

(e)The holder of the permit, or its agents, employees, or independent contractors, 
has distributed any prescription drug without written request, when a written request 
is required by this section. 

(f)The holder of the permit has in its employ, or uses as agent or independent 
contractor for the purpose of distributing or disposing of drugs, any person who has: 

1.Violated the requirements of this section or any rule adopted under this section. 
2.Been convicted in any of the courts of this state, the United States, or any other 

state of a felony or any other crime involving moral turpitude or involving those 
drugs named or described in chapter 893. 

(13)The department may, pursuant to chapter 120, impose an administrative fine, 
not to exceed $5,000 per violation per day, for the violation of this section or rules 
adopted under this section. Each day such violation continues constitutes a separate 
violation, and each such separate violation is subject to a separate fine. All amounts 
collected under this section shall be deposited into the Professional Regulation Trust 
Fund. In determining the amount of fine to be levied for a violation, the following 
factors must be considered: 

(a)The severity of the violation. 
(b)Any actions taken by the permittee to correct the violation or to remedy 

complaints. 
(c)Any previous violations. 
(14)Chapter 893 applies to all drug samples that are controlled substances. 
(15)A person may not possess a prescription drug sample unless: 
(a)The drug sample was prescribed to her or him as evidenced by the label 

required in s. 465.0276(5). 
(b)She or he is the employee of a complimentary drug distributor that holds a 

permit issued under this part. 
(c)She or he is a person to whom prescription drug samples may be distributed 

pursuant to this section. 
(d)He or she is an officer or employee of a federal, state, or local government 

acting within the scope of his or her employment. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 114, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 8, ch. 84-115; 
s. 23, ch. 86-256; ss. 29, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 198, ch. 94-218; s. 23, ch. 97-98; s. 
590, ch. 97-103; s. 39, ch. 99-397; s. 20, ch. 2008-207; s. 12, ch. 2012-143. 
'Note.—Subsection (5) does not contain subparagraphs. 

499.O29Cancer Drug Donation Program.— 
(1)This section may be cited as the "Cancer Drug Donation Program Act." 



(2)There is created a Cancer Drug Donation Program within the department for the 
purpose of authorizing and facilitating the donation of cancer drugs and supplies to 
eligible patients. 

(3)As used in this section: 
(a)"Cancer drug" means a prescription drug that has been approved under s. 505 

of the federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and is used to treat cancer or its side 
effects or is used to treat the side effects of a prescription drug used to treat cancer 
or its side effects. "Cancer drug" does not include a substance listed in Schedule II, 
Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V of s. 893.03. 

(b)"Closed drug delivery system" means a system in which the actual control of 
the unit-dose medication package is maintained by the facility rather than by the 
individual patient. 

(c)"Donor" means a patient or patient representative who donates cancer drugs or 
supplies needed to administer cancer drugs that have been maintained within a 

closed drug delivery system; health care facilities, nursing homes, hospices, or 
hospitals with closed drug delivery systems; or pharmacies, drug manufacturers, 
medical device manufacturers or suppliers, or wholesalers of drugs or supplies, in 
accordance with this section. "Donor" includes a physician licensed under chapter 
458 or chapter 459 who receives cancer drugs or supplies directly from a drug 
manufacturer, wholesale distributor, or pharmacy. 

(d)"Eligible patient" means a person who the department determines is eligible to 
receive cancer drugs from the program. 

(e)"Participant facility" means a class II hospital pharmacy that has elected to 
participate in the program and that accepts donated cancer drugs and supplies under 
the rules adopted by the department for the program. 

(f)"Prescribing practitioner" means a physician licensed under chapter 458 or 
chapter 459 or any other medical professional with authority under state law to 
prescribe cancer medication. 

(g)"Program" means the Cancer Drug Donation Program created by this section. 
(h)"Supplies" means any supplies used in the administration of a cancer drug. 
(4)Any donor may donate cancer drugs or supplies to a participant facility that 

elects to participate in the program and meets criteria established by the department 
for such participation. Cancer drugs or supplies may not be donated to a specific 
cancer patient, and donated drugs or supplies may not be resold by the program. 
Cancer drugs billed to and paid for by Medicaid in long-term care facilities that are 
eligible for return to stock under federal Medicaid regulations shall be credited to 
Medicaid and are not eligible for donation under the program. A participant facility 
may provide dispensing and consulting services to individuals who are not patients of 
the hospital. 

(5)The cancer drugs or supplies donated to the program may be prescribed only by 
a prescribing practitioner for use by an eligible patient and may be dispensed only by 
a pharmacist. 

(6)(a)A cancer drug may only be accepted or dispensed under the program if the 
drug is in its original, unopened, sealed container, or in a tamper-evident unit-dose 
packaging, except that a cancer drug packaged in single-unit doses may be accepted 
and dispensed if the outside packaging is opened but the single-unit-dose packaging 
is unopened with tamper-resistant packaging intact. 

(b)A cancer drug may not be accepted or dispensed under the program if the drug 
bears an expiration date that is less than 6 months after the date the drug was 
donated or if the drug appears to have been tampered with or mislabeled as 
determined in paragraph (c). 



(c)Prior to being dispensed to an eligible patient, the cancer drug or supplies 
donated under the program shall be inspected by a pharmacist to determine that the 
drug and supplies do not appear to have been tampered with or mislabeled. 

(d)A dispenser of donated cancer drugs or supplies may not submit a claim or 
otherwise seek reimbursement from any public or private third-party payor for 
donated cancer drugs or supplies dispensed to any patient under the program, and a 

public or private third-party payor is not required to provide reimbursement to a 

dispenser for donated cancer drugs or supplies dispensed to any patient under the 
program. 

(7)(a)A donation of cancer drugs or supplies shall be made only at a participant 
facility. A participant facility may decline to accept a donation. A participant facility 
that accepts donated cancer drugs or supplies under the program shall comply with 
all applicable provisions of state and federal law relating to the storage and 
dispensing of the donated cancer drugs or supplies. 

(b)A participant facility that voluntarily takes part in the program may charge a 

handling fee sufficient to cover the cost of preparation and dispensing of cancer 
drugs or supplies under the program. The fee shall be established in rules adopted 
by the department. 

(8)The department, upon the recommendation of the Board of Pharmacy, shall 
adopt rules to carry out the provisions of this section. Initial rules under this section 
shall be adopted no later than 90 days after the effective date of this act. The rules 
shall include, but not be limited to: 

(a)Eligibility criteria, including a method to determine priority of eligible patients 
under the program. 

(b)Standards and procedures for participant facilities that accept, store, distribute, 
or dispense donated cancer drugs or supplies. 

(c)Necessary forms for administration of the program, including, but not limited to, 
forms for use by entities that donate, accept, distribute, or dispense cancer drugs or 
supplies under the program. 

(d)The maximum handling fee that may be charged by a participant facility that 
accepts and distributes or dispenses donated cancer drugs or supplies. 

(e)Categories of cancer drugs and supplies that the program will accept for 
dispensing; however, the department may exclude any drug based on its therapeutic 
effectiveness or high potential for abuse or diversion. 

(f)Maintenance and distribution of the participant facility registry established in 
subsection (10). 

(9)A person who is eligible to receive cancer drugs or supplies under the state 
Medicaid program or under any other prescription drug program funded in whole or 
in part by the state, by any other prescription drug program funded in whole or in 
part by the Federal Government, or by any other prescription drug program offered 
by a third-party insurer, unless benefits have been exhausted, or a certain cancer 
drug or supply is not covered by the prescription drug program, is ineligible to 
participate in the program created under this section. 

(10)The department shall establish and maintain a participant facility registry for 
the program. The participant facility registry shall include the participant facility's 
name, address, and telephone number. The department shall make the participant 
facility registry available on the department's website to any donor wishing to donate 
cancer drugs or supplies to the program. The department's website shall also contain 
links to cancer drug manufacturers that offer drug assistance programs or free 
medication. 

(11)Any donor of cancer drugs or supplies, or any participant in the program, who 
exercises reasonable care in donating, accepting, distributing, or dispensing cancer 
drugs or supplies under the program and the rules adopted under this section shall 



be immune from civil or criminal liability and from professional disciplinary action of 
any kind for any injury, death, or loss to person or property relating to such 
activities. 

(12)A pharmaceutical manufacturer is not liable for any claim or injury arising from 
the transfer of any cancer drug under this section, including, but not limited to, 
liability for failure to transfer or communicate product or consumer information 
regarding the transferred drug, as well as the expiration date of the transferred drug. 

(13)If any conflict exists between the provisions in this section and the provisions 
in this chapter or chapter 465, the provisions in this section shall control the 
operation of the Cancer Drug Donation Program. 
History.—s. 1, ch. 2006-310; s. 122, ch. 2007-5; ss. 2, 21, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O3Possession of certain drugs without prescriptions unlawful; exemptions and 
exceptions.— 

(1)A person may not possess, or possess with intent to sell, dispense, or deliver, 
any habit-forming, toxic, harmful, or new drug subject to s. 499.003(33), or 
prescription drug as defined in s. 499.003(43), unless the possession of the drug has 
been obtained by a valid prescription of a practitioner licensed by law to prescribe 
the drug. However, this section does not apply to the delivery of such drugs to 
persons included in any of the classes named in this subsection, or to the agents or 
employees of such persons, for use in the usual course of their businesses or 
practices or in the performance of their official duties, as the case may be; nor does 
this section apply to the possession of such drugs by those persons or their agents or 
employees for such use: 

(a)A licensed pharmacist or any person under the licensed pharmacist's 
supervision while acting within the scope of the licensed pharmacist's practice; 

(b)A licensed practitioner authorized by law to prescribe prescription drugs or any 
person under the licensed practitioner's supervision while acting within the scope of 
the licensed practitioner's practice; 

(c)A qualified person who uses prescription drugs for lawful research, teaching, or 
testing, and not for resale; 

(d)A licensed hospital or other institution that procures such drugs for lawful 
administration or dispensing by practitioners; 

(e)An officer or employee of a federal, state, or local government; or 
(f)A person that holds a valid permit issued by the department pursuant to this 

part which authorizes that person to possess prescription drugs. 
(2)The possession of a drug under subsection (1) by any person not exempted 

under this section, which drug is not properly labeled to indicate that possession is 
by a valid prescription of a practitioner licensed by law to prescribe such drug, is 
prima facie evidence that such possession is unlawful. 

(3)Violation of subsection (1) is a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable 
as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083, except that possession with the intent to 
sell, dispense, or deliver is a third degree felony, punishable as provided in s. 
775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(4)The department may adopt rules regarding persons engaged in lawful teaching, 
research, or testing who possess prescription drugs and may issue letters of 
exemption to facilitate the lawful possession of prescription drugs under this section. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 5, ch. 84-115; s. 75, ch. 87-243; ss. 
30, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 37, ch. 98-151; s. 43, ch. 2000-242; s. 14, ch. 2000-326; s. 
19, ch. 2001-63; s. 89, ch. 2004-5; s. 22, ch. 2008-207; s. 42, ch. 2010-161. 

499.O32Phenylalanine; prescription required.—Phenylalanine restricted formula is 
declared to be a prescription drug and may be dispensed only upon the prescription 
of a practitioner authorized by law to prescribe prescription drugs. 



History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 31, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 23, ch. 2008- 
207. 

499.O33Ephedrine; prescription required.—Ephedrine is declared to be a 

prescription drug. 
(1)Except as provided in subsection (2), any product that contains any quantity of 

ephedrine, a salt of ephedrine, an optical isomer of ephedrine, or a salt of an optical 
isomer of ephedrine may be dispensed only upon the prescription of a duly licensed 
practitioner authorized by the laws of the state to prescribe prescription drugs. 

(2)A product containing ephedrine described in paragraphs (a)-(e) is exempt from 
subsection (1) if it may lawfully be sold over the counter without a prescription under 
the federal act; is labeled and marketed in a manner consistent with the pertinent 
United States Food and Drug Administration Over-the-Counter Tentative Final or 
Final Monograph; and is manufactured and distributed for legitimate medicinal use in 
a manner that reduces or eliminates the likelihood of abuse, when considered in the 
context with: the package sizes and the manner of packaging of the drug product; 
the name and labeling of the product; the manner of distribution, advertising, and 
promotion of the product; the duration, scope, health significance, and societal cost 
of abuse of the particular product; the need to provide medically important 
ephedrine-containing therapies to the public for United States Food and Drug 
Administration approved indications on an unrestricted, over-the-counter basis; and 
other facts as may be relevant to and consistent with public health and safety. 

(a)Solid oral dosage forms that combine active ingredients in the following ranges 
for each dosage unit: 

1.Theophylline (100-130mg), ephedrine (12.5-24mg). 
2.Theophylline (60-100mg), ephedrine (12.5-24mg), guaifenesin (200-400mg). 
3.Ephedrine (12.5-25mg), guaifenesin (200-400mg). 
4.Phenobarbital (not greater than 8mg) in combination with the ingredients of 

subparagraph 1. or subparagraph 2. 
(b)Liquid oral dosage forms that combine active ingredients in the following ranges 

for each (5m1) dose: 
1.Theophylline (not greater than 45mg), ephedrine (not greater than 36mg), 

guaifenesin (not greater than 100mg), phenobarbital (not greater than 12mg). 
2.Phenylephrine (not greater than 5mg), ephedrine (not greater than 5mg), 

chlorpheniramine (not greater than 2mg), dextromethorphan (not greater than 
10mg), ammonium chloride (not greater than 40mg), ipecac fluid extract (not 
greater than 0.005m1). 

(c)Anorectal preparations containing less than 5 percent ephedrine. 
(d)Nasal decongestant compounds, mixtures, or preparations containing 0.5 

percent or less ephedrine. 
(e)Any drug product containing ephedrine that is marketed pursuant to an 

approved new drug application or legal equivalent under the federal act. 
(3)The department may implement this section by rule. 

History.—s. 7, ch. 94-309; s. 1, ch. 95-415; s. 61, ch. 2003-1; s. 24, ch. 2008-207. 
499.O35Dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO); labeling and advertising.— 
(1)Dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO) not approved for drug use must be clearly marked 

in at least 12-point boldfaced type: "May be unsafe. Not approved for human use." 
(2)All advertisements for the sale of dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO) not approved for 

drug use must contain, within the advertisement and in bold lettering, the following 
statement: "Warning. May be unsafe. Not approved for human use." 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 26, ch. 82-402; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 32, 52, ch. 92- 
69; ss. 1, 5, 8, ch. 94-309. 

499.O39Sale, distribution, or transfer of harmful chemical substances; penalties; 
authority for enforcement.—It is unlawful for a person to sell, deliver, or give to a 



person under the age of 18 years any compound, liquid, or chemical containing 
toluol, hexane, trichloroethylene, acetone, toluene, ethyl acetate, methyl ethyl 
ketone, trichloroethane, isopropanol, methyl isobutyl ketone, ethylene glycol 
monomethyl ether acetate, cyclohexanone, nitrous oxide, diethyl ether, alkyl nitrites 
(butyl nitrite), or any similar substance for the purpose of inducing by breathing, 
inhaling, or ingesting a condition of intoxication or which is intended to distort or 
disturb the auditory, visual, or other physical or mental processes. 

(1)On the first violation of this section, the department may issue a warning 
according to s. 499.002(5), if the violation has not caused temporary or permanent 
physical or mental injury to the user. 

(2)If any violation of this section has caused temporary or permanent physical or 
mental injury to the user, the department may, pursuant to chapter 120, impose 
fines according to s. 499.066 and may report any violation to the appropriate state 
attorney for prosecution. 

(3)The department shall adopt rules to implement this section. 
History.—s. 12, ch. 86-133; s. 1, ch. 89-296; ss. 33, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 239, ch. 99- 
8; s. 25, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O4Fee authority.—The department may collect fees for all drug, device, and 
cosmetic applications, permits, product registrations, and free-sale certificates. The 
total amount of fees collected from all permits, applications, product registrations, 
and free-sale certificates must be adequate to fund the expenses incurred by the 
department in carrying out this part. The department shall, by rule, establish a 

schedule of fees that are within the ranges provided in this section and shall adjust 
those fees from time to time based on the costs associated with administering this 
part. The fees are payable to the department to be deposited into the Professional 
Regulation Trust Fund for the sole purpose of carrying out this part. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 115, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 34, 52, ch. 92- 
69; s. 15, ch. 2000-326; s. 26, ch. 2008-207; s. 13, ch. 2012-143. 

499.O4lSchedule of fees for drug, device, and cosmetic applications and permits, 
product registrations, and free-sale certificates.— 

(1)The department shall assess applicants requiring a manufacturing permit an 
annual fee within the ranges established in this section for the specific type of 
manufacturer. 

(a)The fee for a prescription drug manufacturer permit may not be less than $500 
or more than $750 annually. 

(b)The fee for a device manufacturer permit may not be less than $500 or more 
than $600 annually. 

(c)The fee for a cosmetic manufacturer permit may not be less than $250 or more 
than $400 annually. 

(d)The fee for an over-the-counter drug manufacturer permit may not be less than 
$300 or more than $400 annually. 

(e)The fee for a compressed medical gas manufacturer permit may not be less 
than $400 or more than $500 annually. 

(f)The fee for a prescription drug repackager permit may not be less than $500 or 
more than $750 annually. 

(g)A manufacturer may not be required to pay more than one fee per 
establishment to obtain an additional manufacturing permit, but each manufacturer 
must pay the highest fee applicable to his or her operation in each establishment. 

(2)The department shall assess an applicant that is required to have a wholesaling 
permit an annual fee within the ranges established in this section for the specific 
type of wholesaling. 

(a)The fee for a prescription drug wholesale distributor permit may not be less 
than $300 or more than $800 annually. 



(b)The fee for a compressed medical gas wholesale distributor permit may not be 
less than $200 or more than $300 annually. 

(c)The fee for an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor permit may 
not be less than $300 or more than $800 annually. 

(d)The fee for a nonresident prescription drug manufacturer permit may not be 
less than $300 or more than $500 annually. 

(e)The fee for a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit may not be less 
than $35 or more than $50 annually. 

(f)The fee for a freight forwarder permit may not be less than $200 or more than 
$300 annually. 

(g)The fee for a veterinary prescription drug wholesale distributor permit may not 
be less than $300 or more than $500 annually. 

(h)The fee for a limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor permit 
may not be less than $300 or more than $500 annually. 

(i)The fee for a third party logistics provider permit may not be less than $200 or 
more than $300 annually. 

(3)The department shall assess an applicant that is required to have a retail 
establishment permit an annual fee within the ranges established in this section for 
the specific type of retail establishment. 

(a)The fee for a veterinary prescription drug retail establishment permit may not 
be less than $200 or more than $300 annually. 

(b)The fee for a medical oxygen retail establishment permit may not be less than 
$200 or more than $300 annually. 

(c)The fee for a health care clinic establishment permit may not be less than $125 
or more than $250 annually. 

(4)The department shall assess an applicant that is required to have a restricted 
prescription drug distributor permit an annual fee of not less than $200 or more than 
$300. 

(5)In addition to the fee charged for a permit required by this part, the department 
shall assess applicants an initial application fee of $150 for each new permit issued 
by the department which requires an onsite inspection. 

(6)A person that is required to register drugs, devices, or cosmetic products under 
s. 499.015 shall pay an annual product registration fee of not less than $5 or more 
than $15 for each separate and distinct product in package form. The registration fee 
is in addition to the fee charged for a free-sale certificate. 

(7)The department shall assess an applicant that requests a free-sale certificate a 

fee of $25. A fee of $2 will be charged for each signature copy of a free-sale 
certificate that is obtained at the same time the free-sale certificate is issued. 

(8)The department shall assess an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale 
distributor applicant or permittee an onsite inspection fee of not less than $1,000 or 
more than $3,000 annually, to be based on the actual cost of the inspection if an 
onsite inspection is performed by agents of the department. 

(9)The department shall assess each person applying for certification as a 

designated representative a fee of $150, plus the cost of processing the criminal 
history record check. 

(10)The department shall assess other fees as provided in this part. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 116, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 10, 14, ch. 88- 
159; s. 4, ch. 89-296; ss. 35, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 591, ch. 97-103; s. 16, ch. 2000- 
326; s. 20, ch. 2003-155; s. 5, ch. 2004-328; s. 5, ch. 2006-92; s. 27, ch. 2008- 
207. 

499.O5Rules.— 
(1)The department shall adopt rules to implement and enforce this part with 

respect to: 



(a)The definition of terms used in this part, and used in the rules adopted under 
this part, when the use of the term is not its usual and ordinary meaning. 

(b)Labeling requirements for drugs, devices, and cosmetics. 
(c)The establishment of fees authorized in this part. 
(d)The identification of permits that require an initial application and onsite 

inspection or other prerequisites for permitting which demonstrate that the 
establishment and person are in compliance with the requirements of this part. 

(e)The application processes and forms for product registration. 
(f)Procedures for requesting and issuing certificates of free sale. 
(g)Inspections and investigations conducted under s. 499.051, and the 

identification of information claimed to be a trade secret and exempt from the public 
records law as provided in s. 499.051(7). 

(h)The establishment of a range of penalties, as provided in s. 499.066; 
requirements for notifying persons of the potential impact of a violation of this part; 
and a process for the uncontested settlement of alleged violations. 

(i)Additional conditions that qualify as an emergency medical reason under s. 
499.003(54)(b)2. 

(j)Procedures and forms relating to the pedigree paper requirement of s. 
499.01212. 

(k)The protection of the public health, safety, and welfare regarding good 
manufacturing practices that manufacturers and repackagers must follow to ensure 
the safety of the products. 

(l)Information required from each retail establishment pursuant to s. 499.012(3), 
including requirements for prescriptions or orders. 

(m)The recordkeeping, storage, and handling with respect to each of the 
distributions of prescription drugs specified in s. 499.003(54)(a)-(d). 

(n)Alternatives to compliance with s. 499.01212 for a prescription drug in the 
inventory of a permitted prescription drug wholesale distributor as of June 30, 2006, 
and the return of a prescription drug purchased prior to July 1, 2006. The 
department may specify time limits for such alternatives. 

(0) Wholesale distributor reporting requirements of s. 499.0121(14). 
(p)Wholesale distributor credentialing and distribution requirements of s. 

499.0121(15). 
(2) With respect to products in interstate commerce, those rules must not be 

inconsistent with rules and regulations of federal agencies unless specifically 
otherwise directed by the Legislature. 

(3)The department shall adopt rules regulating recordkeeping for and the storage, 
handling, and distribution of medical devices and over-the-counter drugs to protect 
the public from adulterated products. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 6, ch. 84-115; 5. 88, ch. 85-81; 5. 

4, ch. 86-133; ss. 17, 18, 36, ch. 92-69; ss. 2, 5, 8, ch. 94-309; ss. 31, 34, 38, ch. 
98-151; s. 172, ch. 99-397; ss. 39, 44, ch. 2000-242; s. 20, ch. 2001-63; s. 32, ch. 
2001-89; ss. 13, 14, 18, ch. 2003-155; ss. 87, 90, ch. 2004-5; s. 28, ch. 2008-207; 
s. 43, ch. 2010-161; s. 19, ch. 2011-141. 
Note.—Paragraph (1)(k) former s. 499.013(3); paragraph (1)(l) former s. 
499.0122(2)(b); paragraph (1)(m) former s. 499.012(12). 

499.O5llnspections and investigations.— 
(1)The agents of the department and of the Department of Law Enforcement, after 

they present proper identification, may inspect, monitor, and investigate any 
establishment permitted pursuant to this part during business hours for the purpose 
of enforcing this part, chapters 465, 501, and 893, and the rules of the department 
that protect the public health, safety, and welfare. 



(2)In addition to the authority set forth in subsection (1), the department and any 
duly designated officer or employee of the department may enter and inspect any 
other establishment for the purpose of determining compliance with this part and 
rules adopted under this part regarding any drug, device, or cosmetic product. 

(3)Any application for a permit or product registration or for renewal of such 
permit or registration made pursuant to this part and rules adopted under this part 
constitutes permission for any entry or inspection of the premises in order to verify 
compliance with this part and rules; to discover, investigate, and determine the 
existence of compliance; or to elicit, receive, respond to, and resolve complaints and 
violations. 

(4)Any application for a permit made pursuant to s. 499.012 and rules adopted 
under that section constitutes permission for agents of the department and the 
Department of Law Enforcement, after presenting proper identification, to inspect, 
review, and copy any financial document or record related to the manufacture, 
repackaging, or distribution of a drug as is necessary to verify compliance with this 
part and the rules adopted by the department to administer this part, in order to 
discover, investigate, and determine the existence of compliance, or to elicit, 
receive, respond to, and resolve complaints and violations. 

(5)The authority to inspect under this section includes the authority to access, 
review, and copy any and all financial documents related to the activity of 
manufacturing, repackaging, or distributing prescription drugs. 

(6)The authority to inspect under this section includes the authority to secure: 
(a)Samples or specimens of any drug, device, or cosmetic; or 
(b)Such other evidence as is needed for any action to enforce this part and the 

rules adopted under this part. 
(7)The complaint and all information obtained pursuant to the investigation by the 

department are confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the 
State Constitution until the investigation and the enforcement action are completed. 
However, trade secret information contained therein as defined by s. 812.081(1)(c) 
shall remain confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119.07(1) and s. 
24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution, as long as the information is retained by the 
department. This subsection does not prohibit the department from using such 
information for regulatory or enforcement proceedings under this chapter or from 
providing such information to any law enforcement agency or any other regulatory 
agency. However, the receiving agency shall keep such records confidential and 
exempt as provided in this subsection. In addition, this subsection is not intended to 
prevent compliance with the provisions of s. 499.01212, and the pedigree papers 
required in that section shall not be deemed a trade secret. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 26, ch. 82-402; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 5, ch. 86-133; s. 
11, ch. 88-159; ss. 37, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 199, ch. 94-218; ss. 3, 5, 8, ch. 94-309; s. 
7, ch. 95-366; s. 332, ch. 96-406; s. 240, ch. 99-8; s. 62, ch. 2003-1; s. 21, ch. 
2003-155; s. 26, ch. 2007-6; s. 29, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O52Records of interstate shipment.—For the purpose of enforcing this part, 
carriers engaged in interstate commerce and persons receiving drugs, devices, or 
cosmetics in interstate commerce must, upon the request, in the manner set out 
below, by an officer or employee duly designated by the department, permit the 
officer or employee to have access to and to copy all records showing the movement 
in interstate commerce of any drug, device, or cosmetic, and the quantity, shipper, 
and consignee thereof. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 38, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 30, ch. 2008- 
207. 

499.O55Reports and dissemination of information by department.— 



(1)The department may cause to be published from time to time reports 
summarizing all judgments, decrees, and court orders that have been rendered 
under ss. 499.001-499.79, including the nature of any charges and the dispositions 
of the charges. 

(2)The department may also cause to be disseminated such information regarding 
drugs, devices, and cosmetics as considered necessary in the interest of public 
health and the protection of consumers against fraud. 

(3)This section does not prohibit the department from collecting, reporting, and 
illustrating the results of its investigations. 

(4)The department shall publish on the department's website and update at least 
monthly: 

(a)A list of the prescription drug wholesale distributors, out-of-state prescription 
drug wholesale distributors, and retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributors against 
whom the department has initiated enforcement action pursuant to this part to 
suspend or revoke a permit, seek an injunction, or otherwise file an administrative 
complaint and the permit number of each such wholesale distributor. 

(b)A list of the prescription drug wholesale distributors, out-of-state prescription 
drug wholesale distributors, and retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributors to which 
the department has issued a permit, including the date on which each permit will 
expire. 

(c)A list of the prescription drug wholesale distributor, out-of-state prescription 
drug wholesale distributor, and retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permits 
that have been returned to the department, were suspended, were revoked, have 
expired, or were not renewed in the previous year. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 6, ch. 86-133; ss. 39, 52, ch. 92- 
69; s. 22, ch. 2003-155; s. 31, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O57Expenses and salaries.—Except as otherwise provided in the General 
Appropriations Act, all expenses and salaries shall be paid out of the Professional 
Regulation Trust Fund. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 40, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 564, ch. 
2003-261; s. 14, ch. 2012-143. 

499.O6Embargoing, detaining, or destroying article or processing equipment which 
is in violation of law or rule.— 

(1)When a duly authorized agent of the department finds, or has probable cause to 
believe, that any drug, device, or cosmetic is in violation of any provision of this part 
or any rule adopted under this part so as to be dangerous, unwholesome, or 
fraudulent within the meaning of this part, she or he may issue and enforce a stop- 
sale, stop-use, removal, or hold order, which order gives notice that such article or 
processing equipment is, or is suspected of being, in violation and has been detained 
or embargoed, and which order warns all persons not to remove, use, or dispose of 
such article or processing equipment by sale or otherwise until permission for 
removal, use, or disposal is given by such agent or the court. It is unlawful for any 
person to remove, use, or dispose of such detained or embargoed article or 
processing equipment by sale or otherwise without such permission; and such act is 
a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or 
s. 775.084. 

(2) When an article or processing equipment detained or embargoed under 
subsection (1) has been found by such agent to be in violation of law or rule, she or 
he shall, within 90 days after the issuance of such notice, petition the circuit court, in 
the jurisdiction of which the article or processing equipment is detained or 
embargoed, for an order for condemnation of such article or processing equipment. 
When such agent has found that an article or processing equipment so detained or 



embargoed is not in violation, she or he shall rescind the stop-sale, stop-use, 
removal, or hold order. 

(3)If the court finds that the detained or embargoed article or processing 
equipment is in violation, such article or processing equipment shall, after entry of 
the court order, be destroyed or made sanitary at the expense of the claimant 
thereof, under the supervision of such agent; and all court costs, fees, and storage 
and other proper expenses shall be taxed against the claimant of such article or 
processing equipment or her or his agent. However, when the violation can be 
corrected by proper labeling of the article or sanitizing of the processing equipment, 
and after such costs, fees, and expenses have been paid and a good and sufficient 
bond, conditioned that such article be so labeled or processed or such processing 
equipment be so sanitized, has been executed, the court may by order direct that 
such article or processing equipment be delivered to the claimant thereof for such 
labeling, processing, or sanitizing, under the supervision of an agent of the 
department. The expense of such supervision shall be paid by the claimant. Such 
bond shall be returned to the claimant of the article or processing equipment upon 
representation to the court by the department that the article or processing 
equipment is no longer in violation of this part and that the expenses of such 
supervision have been paid. 

(4) When the department or any of its authorized agents finds in any room, 
building, vehicle of transportation, or other structure any perishable articles that are 
unsound or contain any filthy, decomposed, or putrid substances, or which may be 
poisonous or deleterious to health or otherwise unsafe, the same being hereby 
declared to be a nuisance, the department, or its authorized agent, shall forthwith 
condemn or destroy such articles or in any other manner render such articles 
unsalable. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 41, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 592, ch. 97- 
103; s. 32, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O62Seizure and condemnation of drugs, devices, or cosmetics.— 
(1)Any article of any drug, device, or cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded 

under this part is subject to seizure and condemnation by the department or by its 
duly authorized agents designated for that purpose in regard to drugs, devices, or 
cosmetics. 

(2) Whenever a duly authorized officer or employee of the department finds cause, 
or has probable cause to believe that cause exists, for the seizure of any drug, 
device, or cosmetic, as set out in this part, he or she shall affix to the article a tag, 
stamp, or other appropriate marking, giving notice that the article is, or is suspected 
of being, subject to seizure under this part and that the article has been detained 
and seized by the department. Such officer or employee shall also warn all persons 
not to remove or dispose of the article, by sale or otherwise, until permission is given 
by the department or the court. Any person who violates this subsection is guilty of a 

felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 
775.084. 

(a)When any article detained or seized under this subsection has been found by 
the department to be subject to seizure and condemnation, the department shall 
petition the court for an order of condemnation or sale, as the court directs. The 
proceeds of the sale of drugs, devices, and cosmetics, less the legal costs and 
charges, shall be deposited into the Professional Regulation Trust Fund. 

(b)If the department finds that any article seized under this subsection was not 
subject to seizure, the department or the designated officer or employee shall 
remove the tag or marking. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 42, 43, 44, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 593, 
ch. 97-103; s. 33, ch. 2008-207; s. 15, ch. 2012-143. 



Note.—Subsection (2) intro, former s. 499.063; paragraphs (2)(a), (b) former s. 
499.064. 

499.O65lnspections; imminent danger.— 
(1)Notwithstanding s. 499.051, the department shall inspect each prescription 

drug wholesale distributor establishment, prescription drug repackager 
establishment, veterinary prescription drug wholesale distributor establishment, 
limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor establishment, and retail 
pharmacy drug wholesale distributor establishment that is required to be permitted 
under this part as often as necessary to ensure compliance with applicable laws and 
rules. The department shall have the right of entry and access to these facilities at 
any reasonable time. 

(2)To protect the public from prescription drugs that are adulterated or otherwise 
unfit for human or animal consumption, the department may examine, sample, 
seize, and stop the sale or use of prescription drugs to determine the condition of 
those drugs. The department may immediately seize and remove any prescription 
drugs if the Secretary of Business and Professional Regulation or his or her designee 
determines that the prescription drugs represent a threat to the public health. The 
owner of any property seized under this section may, within 10 days after the 
seizure, apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for whatever relief is appropriate. 
At any time after 10 days, the department may destroy the drugs as contraband. 

(3)The department may determine that a prescription drug wholesale distributor 
establishment, prescription drug repackager establishment, veterinary prescription 
drug wholesale distributor establishment, limited prescription drug veterinary 
wholesale distributor establishment, or retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor 
establishment that is required to be permitted under this part is an imminent danger 
to the public health and shall require its immediate closure if the establishment fails 
to comply with applicable laws and rules and, because of the failure, presents an 
imminent threat to the public's health, safety, or welfare. Any establishment so 
deemed and closed shall remain closed until allowed by the department or by judicial 
order to reopen. 

(4)For purposes of this section, a refusal to allow entry to the department for 
inspection at reasonable times, or a failure or refusal to provide the department with 
required documentation for purposes of inspection, constitutes an imminent danger 
to the public health. 
History.—s. 23, ch. 2003-155; s. 6, ch. 2004-328; s. 6, ch. 2006-92; s. 107, ch. 
2008-6; s. 34, ch. 2008-207; s. 6, ch. 2012-143. 

499.O66Penalties; remedies.—In addition to other penalties and other enforcement 
provisions: 

(1)The department may institute such suits or other legal proceedings as are 
required to enforce any provision of this part. If it appears that a person has violated 
any provision of this part for which criminal prosecution is provided, the department 
may provide the appropriate state attorney or other prosecuting agency having 
jurisdiction with respect to such prosecution with the relevant information in the 
department's possession. 

(2)If any person engaged in any activity covered by this part violates any provision 
of this part, any rule adopted under this part, or a cease and desist order as provided 
by this part, the department may obtain an injunction in the circuit court of the 
county in which the violation occurred or in which the person resides or has its 
principal place of business, and may apply in that court for such temporary and 
permanent orders as the department considers necessary to restrain the person from 
engaging in any such activities until the person complies with this part, the rules 
adopted under this part, and the orders of the department authorized by this part or 



to mandate compliance with this part, the rules adopted under this part, and any 
order or permit issued by the department under this part. 

(3)The department may impose an administrative fine, not to exceed $5,000 per 
violation per day, for the violation of any provision of this part or rules adopted 
under this part. Each day a violation continues constitutes a separate violation, and 
each separate violation is subject to a separate fine. All amounts collected pursuant 
to this section shall be deposited into the Professional Regulation Trust Fund and are 
appropriated for the use of the department in administering this part. In determining 
the amount of the fine to be levied for a violation, the department shall consider: 

(a)The severity of the violation; 
(b)Any actions taken by the person to correct the violation or to remedy 

complaints; and 
(c)Any previous violations. 
(4)The department shall deposit any rewards, fines, or collections that are due the 

department and which derive from joint enforcement activities with other state and 
federal agencies which relate to this part, chapter 893, or the federal act, into the 
Professional Regulation Trust Fund. The proceeds of those rewards, fines, and 
collections are appropriated for the use of the department in administering this part. 

(5)The department may issue an emergency order immediately suspending or 
revoking a permit if it determines that any condition in the establishment presents a 

danger to the public health, safety, and welfare. 
(6)The department may issue an emergency order to immediately remove from 

commerce and public access any drug, device, or cosmetic, if the department 
determines that the drug, device, or cosmetic presents a clear and present danger to 
the public health, safety, and welfare. 

(7)Resignation or termination of an affiliated party does not affect the 
department's jurisdiction or discretion to proceed with action to suspend or revoke a 

permit or to impose other penalties or enforcement actions authorized by law. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 26, ch. 82-402; s. 117, ch. 83-218; 5. 1, ch. 83-265; 
s. 7, ch. 86-133; s. 3, ch. 86-271; ss. 45, 52, ch. 92-69; ss. 4, 5, 8, ch. 94-309; s. 
24, ch. 2003-155; s. 35, ch. 2008-207; s. 16, ch. 2012-143. 

499.O66lCease and desist orders; removal of certain persons.— 
(1)CEASE AND DESIST ORDERS.— 
(a)In addition to any authority otherwise provided in this chapter, the department 

may issue and serve a complaint stating charges upon any permittee or upon any 
affiliated party, whenever the department has reasonable cause to believe that the 
person or individual named therein is engaging in or has engaged in conduct that is: 

1.An act that demonstrates a lack of fitness or trustworthiness to engage in the 
business authorized under the permit issued pursuant to this part, is hazardous to 
the public health, or constitutes business operations that are a detriment to the 
public health; 

2.A violation of any provision of this part; 
3.A violation of any rule of the department; 
4.A violation of any order of the department; or 
5.A breach of any written agreement with the department. 
(b)The complaint must contain a statement of facts and notice of opportunity for a 

hearing pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57. 
(c)If a hearing is not requested within the time allowed by ss. 120.569 and 120.57, 

or if a hearing is held and the department finds that any of the charges are proven, 
the department may enter an order directing the permittee or the affiliated party 
named in the complaint to cease and desist from engaging in the conduct complained 
of and take corrective action to remedy the effects of past improper conduct and 
assure future compliance. 



(d)A contested or default cease and desist order is effective when reduced to 
writing and served upon the permittee or affiliated party named therein. An 
uncontested cease and desist order is effective as agreed. 

(e)Whenever the department finds that conduct described in paragraph (a) is likely 
to cause an immediate threat to the public health, it may issue an emergency cease 
and desist order requiring the permittee or any affiliated party to immediately cease 
and desist from engaging in the conduct complained of and to take corrective and 
remedial action. The emergency order is effective immediately upon service of a 

copy of the order upon the permittee or affiliated party named therein and remains 
effective for 90 days. If the department begins nonemergency cease and desist 
proceedings under this subsection, the emergency order remains effective until the 
conclusion of the proceedings under ss. 120.569 and 120.57. 

(2)REMOVAL OF AFFILIATED PARTIES BY THE DEPARTMENT.— 
(a)The department may issue and serve a complaint stating charges upon any 

affiliated party and upon the permittee involved whenever the department has 
reason to believe that an affiliated party is engaging in or has engaged in conduct 
that constitutes: 

1.An act that demonstrates a lack of fitness or trustworthiness to engage in the 
business authorized under the permit issued pursuant to this part, is hazardous to 
the public health, or constitutes business operations that are a detriment to the 
public health; 

2.A willful violation of this part; however, if the violation constitutes a 

misdemeanor, a complaint may not be served as provided in this section until the 
affiliated party is notified in writing of the matter of the violation and has been 
afforded a reasonable period of time, as set forth in the notice, to correct the 
violation and has failed to do so; 

3.A violation of any other law involving fraud or moral turpitude which constitutes 
a felony; 

4.A willful violation of any rule of the department; 
5.A willful violation of any order of the department; or 
6.A material misrepresentation of fact, made knowingly and willfully or made with 

reckless disregard for the truth of the matter. 
(b)The complaint must contain a statement of facts and notice of opportunity for a 

hearing pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57. 
(c)If a hearing is not requested within the time allotted by ss. 120.569 and 120.57, 

or if a hearing is held and the department finds that any of the charges in the 
complaint are proven true, the department may enter an order removing the 
affiliated party or restricting or prohibiting participation by the person in the affairs of 
that permittee or of any other permittee. 

(d)A contested or default order of removal, restriction, or prohibition is effective 
when reduced to writing and served on the permittee and the affiliated party. An 
uncontested order of removal, restriction, or prohibition is effective as agreed. 

(e)1.The chief executive officer, designated representative, or the person holding 
the equivalent office, of a permittee shall promptly notify the department if she or he 
has actual knowledge that any affiliated party is charged with a felony in a state or 
federal court. 

2.Whenever any affiliated party is charged with a felony in a state or federal court 
or with the equivalent of a felony in the courts of any foreign country with which the 
United States maintains diplomatic relations, and the charge alleges violation of any 
law involving prescription drugs, pharmaceuticals, fraud, theft, or moral turpitude, 
the department may enter an emergency order suspending the affiliated party or 
restricting or prohibiting participation by the affiliated party in the affairs of the 
particular permittee or of any other permittee upon service of the order upon the 



permittee and the affiliated party charged. The order must contain notice of 
opportunity for a hearing pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57, where the affiliated 
party may request a postsuspension hearing to show that continued service to or 
participation in the affairs of the permittee does not pose a threat to the public 
health or the interests of the permittee and does not threaten to impair public 
confidence in the permittee. In accordance with applicable departmental rules, the 
department shall notify the affiliated party whether the order suspending or 
prohibiting the person from participation in the affairs of a permittee will be 
rescinded or otherwise modified. The emergency order remains in effect, unless 
otherwise modified by the department, until the criminal charge is disposed of. The 
acquittal of the person charged, or the final, unappealed dismissal of all charges 
against the person, dissolves the emergency order but does not prohibit the 
department from instituting proceedings under paragraph (a). If the person charged 
is convicted or pleads guilty or nob contendere, whether or not an adjudication of 
guilt is entered by the court, the emergency order shall become final. 

(f)Any affiliated party removed pursuant to this section is not eligible for 
reemployment by the permittee or to be an affiliated party of any permittee except 
upon the written consent of the department. Any affiliated party who is removed, 
restricted, or prohibited from participating in the affairs of a permittee pursuant to 
this section may petition the department for modification or termination of the 
removal, restriction, or prohibition. 
History.—s. 25, ch. 2003-155; ss. 2, 36, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O67Denial, suspension, or revocation of permit, certification, or registration.— 
(1)(a)The department may deny, suspend, or revoke a permit if it finds that there 

has been a substantial failure to comply with this part or chapter 465, chapter 501, 
or chapter 893, the rules adopted under this part or those chapters, any final order 
of the department, or applicable federal laws or regulations or other state laws or 
rules governing drugs, devices, or cosmetics. 

(b)The department may deny an application for a permit or certification, or 
suspend or revoke a permit or certification, if the department finds that: 

1.The applicant is not of good moral character or that it would be a danger or not 
in the best interest of the public health, safety, and welfare if the applicant were 
issued a permit or certification. 

2.The applicant has not met the requirements for the permit or certification. 
3.The applicant is not eligible for a permit or certification for any of the reasons 

enumerated in s. 499.012. 
4.The applicant, permittee, or person certified under s. 499.012(16) demonstrates 

any of the conditions enumerated in s. 499.012. 
5.The applicant, permittee, or person certified under s. 499.012(16) has 

committed any violation of ss. 499.005-499.0054. 
(2)The department may deny, suspend, or revoke any registration required by the 

provisions of this part for the violation of any provision of this part or of any rules 
adopted under this part. 

(3)The department may revoke or suspend a permit: 
(a)If the permit was obtained by misrepresentation or fraud or through a mistake 

of the department; 
(b)If the permit was procured, or attempted to be procured, for any other person 

by making or causing to be made any false representation; or 
(c)If the permittee has violated any provision of this part or rules adopted under 

this part. 
(4)If any permit issued under this part is revoked or suspended, the owner, 

manager, operator, or proprietor of the establishment shall cease to operate as the 
permit authorized, from the effective date of the suspension or revocation until the 



person is again registered with the department and possesses the required permit. If 
a permit is revoked or suspended, the owner, manager, or proprietor shall remove 
all signs and symbols that identify the operation as premises permitted as a drug 
wholesaling establishment; drug, device, or cosmetic manufacturing establishment; 
or retail establishment. The department shall determine the length of time for which 
the permit is to be suspended. If a permit is revoked, the person that owns or 
operates the establishment may not apply for any permit under this part for a period 
of 1 year after the date of the revocation. A revocation of a permit may be 
permanent if the department considers that to be in the best interest of the public 
health. 

(5)The department may deny, suspend, or revoke a permit issued under this part 
which authorizes the permittee to purchase prescription drugs if any owner, officer, 
employee, or other person who participates in administering or operating the 
establishment has been found guilty of any violation of this part or chapter 465, 
chapter 501, or chapter 893, any rules adopted under this part or those chapters, or 
any federal or state drug law, regardless of whether the person has been pardoned, 
had her or his civil rights restored, or had adjudication withheld. 

(6)The department shall deny, suspend, or revoke the permit of any person or 
establishment if the assignment, sale, transfer, or lease of an establishment 
permitted under this part will avoid an administrative penalty, civil action, or criminal 
prosecution. 

(7)Notwithstanding s. 120.60(5), if a permittee fails to comply with s. 499.012(6), 
the department may revoke the permit of the permittee and shall provide notice of 
the intended agency action by posting a notice at the department's headquarters and 
by mailing a copy of the notice of intended agency action by certified mail to the 
most recent mailing address on record with the department and, if the permittee is 
not a natural person, to the permittee's registered agent on file with the Department 
of State. 

(8)The department may deny, suspend, or revoke a permit if it finds the permittee 
has not complied with the credentialing requirements of s. 499.0121(15). 

(9)The department may deny, suspend, or revoke a permit if it finds the permittee 
has not complied with the reporting requirements of, or knowingly made a false 
statement in a report required by, s. 499.0121(14). 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 8, ch. 86-133; ss. 12, 14, ch. 88- 
159; s. 4, ch. 89-296; ss. 46, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 44, ch. 95-144; s. 594, ch. 97-103; 
s. 17, ch. 2000-326; s. 26, ch. 2003-155; s. 37, ch. 2008-207; s. 20, ch. 2011-141. 
PART II 
ETHER 

499.6olLegislative intent; construction. 
499.61 Definitions. 
499.62License or permit required of manufacturer, distributor, dealer, or purchaser 

of ether. 
499.63Forms for applications for licenses and permits. 
499.64lssuance of licenses and permits; prohibitions. 
499.65Possession of ether without license or permit prohibited; confiscation and 

disposal; exceptions. 
499.66Maintenance of records and sales of ether by manufacturers, distributors, 

and dealers; inspections. 
499.67Maintenance of records by purchasers; inspections. 
499.68Reports of thefts, illegal use, or illegal possession. 
499.69Possession in or near residential housing prohibited; legal entitlement to 

possession of premises not a defense. 
499.7olAdoption of rules by the department. 





person who purchases ether in quantities of less than 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by 
weight. 

(5)Annual fees for licenses and permits shall be specified by rule of the 
department, but shall not exceed the following amounts: 

(a)Manufacturer's license $700 
(b)Distributor's license $700 
(c)Dealer's license $350 
(d)Purchaser's permit $150 
(6)Licenses and permits issued by the department shall be valid beginning on 

October 1 of the year for which they are issued and shall expire on the following 
September 30. 

(7)A licensed or permitted facility shall renew its license or permit prior to its 
expiration date. If a renewal application and fee are not filed by the expiration date 
of any year, the permit may be reinstated only upon payment of a delinquent fee of 
$50, plus the required renewal fee, within 30 days after the date of expiration. If any 
person who is subject to the requirements of this part fails to comply with the 
renewal, the department shall have the authority to seize all ether products and 
dispose of them as of November 1 of the year the license or permit expires. Any 
funds collected from the disposal shall be placed in the Professional Regulation Trust 
Fund. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 596, ch. 97-103; s. 17, ch. 
20 12-143. 

499.63Forms for applications for licenses and permits.— 
(1)The forms for applications for ether licenses and permits shall be prescribed by 

the department. 
(2)Each application for a license or permit required by the provisions of this part 

shall be filed in writing with the department. Each application shall require, as a 

minimum, the full name, date of birth, place of birth, social security number, 
physical description of the applicant, residence address and telephone number, and 
business address and telephone number of the applicant. Each application must be 
accompanied by an accurate and current photograph of the applicant and a complete 
set of fingerprints of the applicant taken by an authorized law enforcement officer; 
however, a set of fingerprints shall not be required if the applicant has possessed a 

valid Florida license or permit under this part during the prior license or permit year 
and such Florida license or permit has not lapsed or been suspended or revoked. If 
fingerprints are required, the set of fingerprints shall be submitted by the 
department to the Department of Law Enforcement for state processing and to the 
Federal Bureau of Investigation for federal processing. If the application does not 
require a set of fingerprints, the department shall submit the name and other 
identifying data to the Department of Law Enforcement for processing. Each 
application shall be in such form as to provide that the data and other information 
set forth therein shall be sworn to by the applicant or, if the applicant is a 

corporation, by all officers of the corporation. The officers applying on behalf of a 

corporation shall provide all the data and other information required by this 
subsection and subsection (3), and shall meet all other requirements, which are 
required of a natural person. 

(3)The department may require an applicant to furnish such other information or 
data not required by this section if the information or data is deemed necessary by 
the department. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

499.64lssuance of licenses and permits; prohibitions.— 
(1)Each license and permit issued by the department shall set forth, as a 

minimum, the full name, date of birth, and physical description of the licensee or 



permittee and shall have permanently affixed an accurate and current photograph of 
the licensee or permittee. A license or permit issued to a corporation shall set forth 
the full name, date of birth, and physical description of the chief executive officer 
and/or resident agent residing in this state and shall have permanently affixed an 
accurate and current photograph of the chief executive officer and/or resident agent 
residing in this state. Each license and permit shall also contain a license or permit 
number. 

(2)The department may, in its discretion, include other data or information in the 
license or permit when deemed appropriate. 

(3)No license or permit shall be issued, renewed, or allowed to remain in effect for 
any natural person, or for any corporation which has any corporate officer: 

(a)Under 18 years of age. 
(b)Who has been convicted of a felony under the prescription drug or controlled 

substance laws of this state or any other state or federal jurisdiction, regardless of 
whether he or she has been pardoned or had his or her civil rights restored. 

(c)Who has been convicted of any felony other than a felony under the prescription 
drug or controlled substance laws of this state or any other state or federal 
jurisdiction and has not been pardoned or had his or her civil rights restored. 

(d)Who has been adjudicated mentally incompetent and has not had his or her civil 
rights restored. 

(4)It is unlawful for any person to knowingly withhold information or present to the 
department any false, fictitious, or misrepresented application, identification, 
document, information, or data intended or likely to deceive the department for the 
purpose of obtaining a license or permit. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 597, ch. 97-103. 

499.65Possession of ether without license or permit prohibited; confiscation and 
disposal; exceptions.— 

(1)It is unlawful for any person to possess 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by weight, or 
more of ether unless she or he is the holder of a current valid license or permit as 
provided by this part. 

(2) Whenever the department has reason to believe that any person is or has been 
violating the provisions of this part or any rules adopted pursuant thereto, the 
department may, without further process of law, confiscate and dispose of the ether 
in question. The department is authorized to seize and dispose of any abandoned 
ether. 

(3)The department is authorized to enter into contracts with private business 
entities for the purpose of confiscation and disposal of ether as authorized in 
subsection (2). 

(4)The provisions of subsection (1) shall not apply to: 
(a)Any common carrier transporting ether into this state or within the boundaries 

of this state by air, highway, railroad, or water; 
(b)Any contract or private carrier transporting ether on highways into this state or 

within the boundaries of this state by motor vehicle when such contract or private 
carrier is engaged in such transport pursuant to certificate or permit, by whatever 
name, issued to them by any federal or state officer, agency, bureau, commission, or 
department; 

(c)Pharmacists, for use in the usual course of their professional practice or in the 
performance of their official duties; 

(d)Medical practitioners, for use in the usual course of their professional practice or 
in the performance of their official duties; 

(e)Persons who procure ether for disposition by or under the supervision of 
pharmacists or medical practitioners employed by them or for the purpose of lawful 
research, teaching, or testing, and not for resale; 



(f)Hospitals and other institutions which procure ether for lawful administration by 
practitioners; 

(g)Officers or employees of federal, state, or local governments carrying out their 
official duties; and 

(h)Law enforcement agencies of this state or any of its political subdivisions, and 
the employees thereof, so long as said agencies and employees are acting within the 
scope of their respective official capacities and in the performance of their duties. 

(5)The department may adopt rules regarding persons engaged in lawful teaching, 
research, or testing who possess ether and may issue letters of exemption to 
facilitate the lawful possession of ether under this section. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 598, ch. 97-103; s. 39, ch. 98- 
151. 

499.66Maintenance of records and sales of ether by manufacturers, distributors, 
and dealers; inspections.— 

(l)It is unlawful for any manufacturer, distributor, or dealer to sell, distribute, or 
otherwise transfer ether to any person except a person presenting a current valid 
license or permit as provided by this part. 

(2)Each sale or transfer of ether shall be evidenced by an invoice, receipt, sales 
ticket, or sales slip which shall bear the name, address, and license or permit 
number of the manufacturer, distributor, or dealer and the purchaser or transferee, 
the date of sale or transfer, and the quantity sold or transferred. All original invoices, 
receipts, sales tickets, and sales slips shall be retained by the manufacturer, 
distributor, or dealer, and a copy thereof provided to the purchaser or transferee. 

(3)Each manufacturer, distributor, and dealer shall keep an accurate and current 
written account of all inventories, sales, and transfers of ether. Such records shall be 
maintained by the manufacturer, distributor, or dealer for a period of 5 years. 

(4)Records and inventories as required by subsections (2) and (3) shall be made 
immediately accessible to, and subject to examination and copying by, the 
department and any law enforcement officer of this state without any requirement of 
probable cause or search warrant. 

(5)It is unlawful for any person to knowingly withhold information or to make any 
false or fictitious entry or misrepresentation upon any invoice, receipt, sales ticket, 
or sales slip for the sale, distribution, or transfer of ether or upon any account of 
inventories of ether. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 40, ch. 98-151. 

499.67Maintenance of records by purchasers; inspections.— 
(1)It is unlawful for any person to purchase, receive, store, or use ether without 

maintaining an accurate and current written inventory of all ether purchased, 
received, stored, and used. 

(2)Such records shall include, but not be limited to, invoices, receipts, sales 
tickets, and sales slips; locations, quantities, and dates of use; the names of any 
persons using the ether; and the names and license or permit numbers of all persons 
making such records. Such records shall be maintained by permittees for a period of 
5 years. 

(3)Such records shall be made accessible to, and subject to examination and 
copying by, the department and any law enforcement officer of this state without any 
requirement of probable cause or search warrant. 

(4)It is unlawful for any person to knowingly withhold information or make any 
false or fictitious entry or misrepresentation upon any such records for the purchase, 
receipt, storage, or use of ether. 

(5)It is unlawful for any person to refuse entry or inspection by the department of 
factories, warehouses, or establishments in which ether is manufactured, processed, 



repackaged, or held; to refuse entry by the department into any vehicle being used 
to transport ether; or to refuse the taking of samples by the department. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 41, ch. 98-151. 

499.68Reports of thefts, illegal use, or illegal possession.— 
(1)Any sheriff, police department, or law enforcement officer of this state shall give 

immediate notice to the department of any theft, illegal use, or illegal possession of 
ether involving any person and shall forward a copy of his or her final written report 
to the department. 

(2)Any licensee or permittee who incurs a loss, an unexplained shortage, or a theft 
of ether, or who has knowledge of a loss, an unexplained shortage, or a theft of 
ether, shall, within 12 hours after the discovery thereof, report such loss, theft, or 
unexplained shortage to the county sheriff or police chief of the jurisdiction in which 
the loss, theft, or unexplained shortage occurred. Such loss, theft, or unexplained 
shortage must also be reported to the department by the close of the next business 
day following the discovery thereof. 

(3)Any law enforcement agency which investigates the causes and circumstances 
of any loss, theft, or unexplained shortage of ether shall forward a copy of its final 
written report to the department. The department shall retain all such reports in the 
respective files of the affected licensees and permittees. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 599, ch. 97-103. 

499.69Possession in or near residential housing prohibited; legal entitlement to 
possession of premises not a defense.— 

(1)Notwithstanding the possession of a current valid license or permit as provided 
in this part, it is unlawful for any person to possess 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by 
weight, or more of ether in, or within 500 feet of, any residential housing structure. 

(2)A defendant's legal entitlement to possession of the property where the 
violation occurred shall not be a defense to a prosecution for a violation of subsection 
(1). 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

499.7olAdoption of rules by the department.— 
(1)The department shall adopt and enforce rules necessary to the administration of 

its authority under this part. The rules must be such as are reasonably necessary for 
the protection of the health, welfare, and safety of the public and persons 
manufacturing, distributing, dealing, and possessing ether, and must provide for 
application forms and procedures, recordkeeping requirements, and security. The 
rules must be in substantial conformity with generally accepted standards of safety 
concerning such subject matter. 

(2)The department may adopt rules regarding recordkeeping and security for 
methyl ethyl ketone (MEK) or butyl acetate as needed. These products and records 
are open to inspection in the same manner as are ether products and records. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 45, ch. 2000-242. 

499.7lProcedure for cease and desist orders.— 
(1)Whenever the department has reason to believe that any person is or has been 

violating any provision of this part or any rules adopted pursuant thereto, it shall 
proceed to determine the matter. 

(2)If the department determines that any provision of this part or any rules 
adopted pursuant thereto have been violated, it shall issue to the person charged 
with such violation an order requiring such person to cease and desist from such 
violation or imposing an administrative fine, or both. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

499.72Administrative fines.— 
(1)If any person violates any provision of this part or any rule adopted pursuant 

thereto, or violates a cease and desist order issued by the department, the 



department may impose an administrative fine, not to exceed $5,000 for each 
violation per day, or may suspend or revoke the license or permit issued to such 
person, or both. Each day such violation continues constitutes a separate violation, 
and each such separate violation is subject to a separate fine. The department shall 
allow the licensee or permittee a reasonable period, not to exceed 30 days, within 
which to pay to the department the amount of the fine so imposed. If the licensee or 
permittee fails to pay the fine in its entirety to the department at its office in 
Tallahassee within the period so allowed, the licenses or permits of such person shall 
stand revoked upon expiration of such period. 

(2)All such fines, monetary penalties, and costs received by the department in 
connection with this part shall be deposited in the Professional Regulation Trust 
Fund. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 18, ch. 2012-143. 

499.73Suspension or revocation of license or permit.— 
(1)The violation of any provision of this part, any rule adopted pursuant thereto, or 

any cease and desist order issued by the department by a licensee or permittee as 
provided in this part shall be cause for revocation or suspension of all licenses or 
permits held by such licensee or permittee after the department has determined the 
licensee or permittee to be guilty of such violation. 

(2)If the department finds the licensee or permittee to be guilty of such violation, 
it shall enter its order suspending or revoking the license or permit of the person 
charged. An order of suspension shall state the period of time of such suspension, 
which period shall not be in excess of 1 year from the date of such order. An order of 
revocation may be entered for a period not exceeding 5 years; such order shall effect 
the revocation of all licenses or permits then held by the person charged, and during 
such period no license or permit shall be issued to said person. If, during the period 
between the beginning of proceedings and the entry of an order of suspension or 
revocation by the department, a new license or permit has been issued to the person 
charged, any order of suspension or revocation shall operate effectively with respect 
to the new license or permit held by such person. 

(3)Any person or office of a corporation whose permit or license has been 
suspended or revoked shall not be issued a new permit or license under any other 
name or company name until the expiration of the suspension or revocation in which 
she or he has been involved. 

(4)The provisions of this section are cumulative and shall not affect the 
administrative fine and injunction provisions of ss. 499.72 and 499.76. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; 5. 600, ch. 97-103. 

499.74Conduct of hearings; review of orders of the department.— 
(1)All hearings shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of chapter 

120. 
(2)All review of orders of the department shall be in accordance with the provisions 

of chapter 120. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

499.75Penalties. — 

(1)Any person who knowingly manufactures, distributes, or deals in ether without 
possessing a valid current license as required by s. 499.62(2) is guilty of a felony of 
the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(2)Any person who knowingly purchases 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by weight, or 
more of ether without possessing a valid current permit as required by s. 499.62(4) 
is guilty of a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 
775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)Any person who knowingly withholds information or presents to the department 
any false, fictitious, or misrepresented application, identification, document, 



information, statement, or data intended or likely to deceive the department for the 
purpose of obtaining a license or permit as prohibited by s. 499.64(4) is guilty of a 

misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 
(4)Any person who knowingly possesses 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by weight, or 

more of ether and is not the holder of a valid current license or permit as prohibited 
by s. 499.65(1) is guilty of a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 
775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(5)Any person who knowingly sells or otherwise transfers 2.5 gallons, or equivalent 
by weight, or more of ether to any person who is not the holder of a valid current 
license or permit as prohibited by s. 499.66(1) is guilty of a felony of the third 
degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(6)Any person who knowingly withholds information or makes any false or fictitious 
entry or misrepresentation upon any invoice, receipt, sales ticket, sales slip, or 
account of inventories as prohibited by s. 499.66(5) is guilty of a misdemeanor of 
the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(7)Any licensee who knowingly fails to maintain written accounts of inventories or 
records of sales or transfers as required by s. 499.66(3) is guilty of a misdemeanor 
of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(8)Any permittee who knowingly fails to maintain written inventories and records 
as required by s. 499.67 is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as 
provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(9)Any licensee or permittee who fails to report the loss, unexplained shortage, or 
theft of ether as required by s. 499.68(2) is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first 
degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(10)Any person who knowingly possesses 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by weight, or 
more of ether in, or within 500 feet of, any residential housing structure as 
prohibited by s. 499.69(1) is guilty of a felony of the second degree, punishable as 
provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 121, ch. 91-224; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

499.76lnjunctive relief.—In addition to the penalties and other enforcement 
provisions of this part, in the event any person engaged in any of the activities 
covered by this part violates any provision of this part, any rule adopted pursuant 
thereto, or any cease and desist order as provided by this part, the department is 
authorized to resort to proceedings for injunction in the circuit court of the county in 
which the violation occurred or in which the person resides or has his or her principal 
place of business and may therein apply for such temporary and permanent orders 
as the department may deem necessary to restrain such person from engaging in 
any such activities until such person complies with the provisions of this part, the 
rules adopted pursuant thereto, and the orders of the department as authorized by 
this part. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 601, ch. 97-103. 

499.77Exceptions.—Nothing contained in this part shall apply to the regular 
military and naval forces of the United States, or to the duly organized military 
forces of any state or territory thereof, provided that they are acting within their 
respective official capacities and in the performance of their duties. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

499.78County and municipal ordinances.—Nothing contained in this part shall 
affect any existing ordinance, rule, or regulation pertaining to ether in any county or 
municipality in this state, which ordinance, rule, or regulation is more restrictive than 
the provisions of this part and the rules adopted pursuant thereto; nor shall the 
provisions of this part limit the power of any county or municipality to make 
ordinances, rules, or regulations pertaining to ether which may be more restrictive 
than the provisions of this part and the rules adopted pursuant thereto. 



History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 
499.79Deposit of fees.—All fees collected for licenses and permits required by this 

part shall be deposited in the Professional Regulation Trust Fund, and all moneys 
collected under this part and deposited in the trust fund shall be used by the 
department in the administration of this part. The Department of Business and 
Professional Regulation shall maintain a separate account in the Professional 
Regulation Trust Fund for the Drugs, Devices, and Cosmetics program. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 45, ch. 95-144; s. 19, ch. 
20 12-143. 



The 2012 Florida Statutes 

CHAPTER 120 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT 

120.5oException to application of chapter. 

120.5lShort title. 

120.51 5DecLaration of policy. 

1 20.S2Definitions. 

120.S25Meetings, hearings, and workshops. 

120. S3Maintenance of orders; indexing; listing; organizational information. 

120.533Coordination of indexing by Department of State. 

120.536RuLemaking authority; repeal; chaLLenge. 

120. 54Rulemaking. 

120.541 Statement of estimated regulatory costs. 

120.542Variances and waivers. 

120.545Committee review of agency ruLes. 

1 20.55Publication. 

120.555Summary removal of published ruLes no Longer in force and effect. 

120.56ChaLLenges to ruLes. 

120.565DecLaratory statement by agencies. 

120.569Decisions which affect substantiaL interests. 

120. 57Additional procedures for particuLar cases. 

120.573Mediation of disputes. 

120.574Summary hearing. 

1 20.595Attorney's fees. 

1 20.6oLicensing. 

1 20.62Agency investigations. 

120.63Exemption from act. 

120.65Administrative law judges. 

120.651 Designation of two administrative Law judges to preside over actions involving department or 

boards. 

120.655WithhoLding funds to pay for administrative law judge services to school boards. 

120.66Ex parte communications. 

120.665Disqualification of agency personnel. 



1 20.68Judicial review. 

120.69Enforcement of agency action. 

1 20.695Notice of noncompLiance. 

120.72LegisLative intent; references to chapter 120 or portions thereof. 

120.73Circuit court proceedings; declaratory judgments. 

120.74Agency review, revision, and report. 

120.745LegisLative review of agency rules in effect on or before November 16, 2010. 

120.7455LegisLative survey of regulatory impacts. 

120.8oExceptions and special requirements; agencies. 

120.81 Exceptions and special requirements; general areas. 

I 20.5OException to application of chapter.—This chapter shaLL not apply to: 

(1 )The Legislature. 

(2)The courts. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 3, ch. 77-468; s. 1, ch. 78-162. 

120.5lShort title.—This chapter may be known and cited as the "Administrative Procedure Act." 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310. 

1 120.5l5Declaration of policy.—This chapter provides uniform procedures for the exercise of specified 

authority. This chapter does not limit or impinge upon the assignment of executive power under ArticLe IV of 

the State Constitution or the Legal authority of an appointing authority to direct and supervise those 

appointees serving at the pLeasure of the appointing authority. For purposes of this chapter, adherence to the 

direction and supervision of an appointing authority does not constitute deLegation or transfer of statutory 

authority assigned to the appointee. 

History.—s. 7, ch. 2012-116. 

Note.—SectiOn 3, ch. 2012-116, provides that t]he Legislature intends that the amendments made by this 

act to ss. 20.02, 20.03, and 20.05, Florida Statutes, which apply to the organizational structure of the 

executive branch, and the creation of s. 120.515, Florida Statutes, which applies to administrative procedure, 

are to clarify that the pLacement of an executive department under the direct administration of an officer or 

board appointed by and serving at the pleasure of the Governor does not implicitLy Limit or restrict the 

Governor's prerogative, legal authority, and constitutional responsibility to direct and supervise the execution 

of the law and the exercise of LawfuL discretion." 

120.52Definitions.—As used in this act: 

(1 )"Agency" means the following officers or governmental entities if acting pursuant to powers other 



than those derived from the constitution: 

(a)The Governor; each state officer and state department, and each departmentaL unit described in s. 

20.04; the Board of Governors of the State University System; the Commission on Ethics; the Fish and Wildlife 

Conservation Commission; a regional water suppLy authority; a regional planning agency; a multicounty special 

district, but only when a majority of its governing board is comprised of nonelected persons; educational 

units; and each entity described in chapters 163, 373, 380, and 582 and s. 186.504. 

(b)Each officer and governmentaL entity in the state having statewide jurisdiction or jurisdiction in more 

than one county. 

(c)Each officer and governmental entity in the state having jurisdiction in one county or less than one 

county, to the extent they are expressLy made subject to this act by generaL or speciaL Law or existing judicial 

decisions. 

This definition does not include any municipaLity or legal entity created soLeLy by a municipaLity; any legal 

entity or agency created in whole or in part pursuant to part II of chapter 361; any metropolitan pLanning 

organization created pursuant to s. 339.175; any separate legal or administrative entity created pursuant to s. 

339.175 of which a metropolitan planning organization is a member; an expressway authority pursuant to 

chapter 348 or any transportation authority under chapter 343 or chapter 349; or any legal or administrative 

entity created by an interlocaL agreement pursuant to s. 163.01(7), unless any party to such agreement is 

otherwise an agency as defined in this subsection. 

(2)"Agency action" means the whoLe or part of a ruLe or order, or the equivalent, or the denial of a 

petition to adopt a ruLe or issue an order. The term also includes any denial of a request made under s. 

120.54(7). 

(3)"Agency head" means the person or coLlegiaL body in a department or other governmentaL unit 

statutorily responsible for final agency action. An agency head appointed by and serving at the pleasure of an 

appointing authority remains subject to the direction and supervision of the appointing authority, but actions 

taken by the agency head as authorized by statute are official acts. 

(4)"Committee" means the Administrative Procedures Committee. 

(5)"Division" means the Division of Administrative Hearings. Any document fiLed with the division by a 

party represented by an attorney shalL be filed by electronic means through the division's website. Any 

document filed with the division by a party not represented by an attorney shall, whenever possibLe, be filed 

by electronic means through the division's website. 

(6)"Educational unit" means a LocaL schooL district, a community college district, the FLorida School for 

the Deaf and the BLind, or a state university when the university is acting pursuant to statutory authority 

derived from the Legislature. 

(7)"Final order" means a written finaL decision which results from a proceeding under s. 120.56, s. 



120.565, s. 120.569, s. 120.57, s. 120.573, or s. 120.574 which is not a rule, and which is not excepted from 

the definition of a ruLe, and which has been filed with the agency clerk, and includes final agency actions 

which are affirmative, negative, injunctive, or decLaratory in form. A final order includes all materials 

explicitly adopted in it. The cLerk shalL indicate the date of filing on the order. 

(8)"Invalid exercise of deLegated Legislative authority" means action that goes beyond the powers, 

functions, and duties delegated by the Legislature. A proposed or existing rule is an invalid exercise of 

delegated legislative authority if any one of the folLowing applies: 

(a)The agency has materially faiLed to foLLow the applicable rulemaking procedures or requirements set 

forth in this chapter; 

(b)The agency has exceeded its grant of ruLemaking authority, citation to which is required by s. 

120.54(3)(a)1.; 

(c)The rule enlarges, modifies, or contravenes the specific provisions of law implemented, citation to 

which is required by s. 120.54(3)(a)1.; 

(d)The rule is vague, faiLs to establish adequate standards for agency decisions, or vests unbridled 

discretion in the agency; 

(e)The rule is arbitrary or capricious. A rule is arbitrary if it is not supported by logic or the necessary 

facts; a rule is capricious if it is adopted without thought or reason or is irrational; or 

(f)The rule imposes regulatory costs on the reguLated person, county, or city which could be reduced by 

the adoption of less costly alternatives that substantially accomplish the statutory objectives. 

A grant of rulemaking authority is necessary but not sufficient to aLlow an agency to adopt a rule; a specific 

law to be implemented is also required. An agency may adopt only rules that implement or interpret the 

specific powers and duties granted by the enabling statute. No agency shalL have authority to adopt a rule 

only because it is reasonabLy reLated to the purpose of the enabLing legisLation and is not arbitrary and 

capricious or is within the agency's cLass of powers and duties, nor shalL an agency have the authority to 

implement statutory provisions setting forth general legislative intent or poLicy. Statutory Language granting 

rulemaking authority or generaLLy describing the powers and functions of an agency shall be construed to 

extend no further than implementing or interpreting the specific powers and duties conferred by the enabling 

statute. 

(9)"Law implemented" means the Language of the enabling statute being carried out or interpreted by an 

agency through rulemaking. 

(10)"License" means a franchise, permit, certification, registration, charter, or similar form of 

authorization required by law, but it does not incLude a license required primarily for revenue purposes when 

issuance of the license is merely a ministerial act. 

(11 )"Licensing" means the agency process respecting the issuance, denial, renewal, revocation, 



suspension, annulment, withdrawal, or amendment of a license or imposition of terms for the exercise of a 

license. 

(12)"Official reporter" means the publication in which an agency publishes final orders, the index to final 

orders, and the list of final orders which are listed rather than published. 

(1 3)"Party" means: 

(a)Specifically named persons whose substantial interests are being determined in the proceeding. 

(b)Any other person who, as a matter of constitutional right, provision of statute, or provision of agency 

regulation, is entitled to participate in whole or in part in the proceeding, or whose substantial interests will 

be affected by proposed agency action, and who makes an appearance as a party. 

(c)Any other person, including an agency staff member, allowed by the agency to intervene or participate 

in the proceeding as a party. An agency may by rule authorize limited forms of participation in agency 

proceedings for persons who are not eligible to become parties. 

(d)Any county representative, agency, department, or unit funded and authorized by state statute or 

county ordinance to represent the interests of the consumers of a county, when the proceeding involves the 

substantial interests of a significant number of residents of the county and the board of county commissioners 

has, by resolution, authorized the representative, agency, department, or unit to represent the class of 

interested persons. The authorizing resolution shall apply to a specific proceeding and to appeals and ancillary 

proceedings thereto, and it shall not be required to state the names of the persons whose interests are to be 

represented. 

The term "party" does not include a member government of a regional water supply authority or a 

governmental or quasi-judicial board or commission established by local ordinance or special or general law 

where the governing membership of such board or commission is shared with, in whole or in part, or 

appointed by a member government of a regional water supply authority in proceedings under s. 120.569, s. 

120.57, or s. 120.68, to the extent that an interlocal agreement under ss. 163.01 and 373.713 exists in which 

the member government has agreed that its substantial interests are not affected by the proceedings or that 

it is to be bound by alternative dispute resolution in lieu of participating in the proceedings. This exclusion 

applies only to those particular types of disputes or controversies, if any, identified in an interlocal 

agreement. 

(14)"Person" means any person described in s. 1.01, any unit of government in or outside the state, and 

any agency described in subsection (1). 

(15)"Recommended order" means the official recommendation of an administrative law judge assigned 

by the division or of any other duly authorized presiding officer, other than an agency head or member of an 

agency head, for the final disposition of a proceeding under ss. 120.569 and 120.57. 

(16)"Rule" means each agency statement of general applicability that implements, interprets, or 



prescribes law or policy or describes the procedure or practice requirements of an agency and incLudes any 

form which imposes any requirement or solicits any information not specifically required by statute or by an 

existing rule. The term also includes the amendment or repeal of a rule. The term does not incLude: 

(a)Internal management memoranda which do not affect either the private interests of any person or any 

plan or procedure important to the pubLic and which have no application outside the agency issuing the 

memorandum. 

(b)Legal memoranda or opinions issued to an agency by the Attorney GeneraL or agency LegaL opinions 

prior to their use in connection with an agency action. 

(c)The preparation or modification of: 

1 .Agency budgets. 

2.Statements, memoranda, or instructions to state agencies issued by the Chief Financial Officer or 

Comptroller as chief fiscal officer of the state and relating or pertaining to cLaims for payment submitted by 

state agencies to the Chief FinanciaL Officer or Comptroller. 

3.Contractual provisions reached as a result of coLlective bargaining. 

4.Memoranda issued by the Executive Office of the Governor relating to information resources 

management. 

(17)"Rulemaking authority" means statutory language that explicitly authorizes or requires an agency to 

adopt, develop, estabLish, or otherwise create any statement coming within the definition of the term "rule." 

(18)"Small city" means any municipality that has an unincarcerated popuLation of 10,000 or Less 

according to the most recent decenniaL census. 

(19)"Small county" means any county that has an unincarcerated population of 75,000 or Less according 

to the most recent decennial census. 

(20)"Unadopted ruLe" means an agency statement that meets the definition of the term "ruLe," but that 

has not been adopted pursuant to the requirements of s. 120.54. 

(21 )"Variance" means a decision by an agency to grant a modification to aLL or part of the Literal 

requirements of an agency rule to a person who is subject to the ruLe. Any variance shalL conform to the 

standards for variances outlined in this chapter and in the uniform rules adopted pursuant to s. 120.54(5). 

(22)"Waiver" means a decision by an agency not to apply all or part of a rule to a person who is subject 

to the rule. Any waiver shall conform to the standards for waivers outlined in this chapter and in the uniform 

rules adopted pursuant to s. 120.54(5). 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 1, ch. 75-191; s. 1, ch. 76-131; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 12, ch. 77-290; s. 2, ch. 77-453; s. 1, ch. 78- 

28; s. 1, ch. 78-425; s. 1, ch. 79-20; s. 55, ch. 79-40; s. 1, ch. 79-299; s. 2, ch. 81-119; s. 1, ch. 81-180; s. 7, ch. 82-180; s. 1, ch. 

83-78; s. 2, ch. 83-273; s. 10, ch. 84-170; s. 15, ch. 85-80; s. 1, ch. 85-168; s. 2, ch. 87-385; s. 1, ch. 88-367; s. 1, ch. 89-147; s. 

1, ch. 91-46; s. 9, ch. 92-166; s. 50, ch. 92-279; s. 55, ch. 92-326; s. 3, ch. 96-159; s. 1, ch. 97-176; s. 2, ch. 97-286; s. 1, ch. 98- 



402; s. 64, ch. 99-245; s. 2, ch. 99-379; S. 895, ch. 2002-387; s. 1, ch. 2003-94; s. 138, ch. 2003-261; s. 7, ch. 2003-286; s. 3, ch. 

2007-196; s. 13, ch. 2007-217; s. 2, ch. 2008-104; s. 1, ch. 2009-85; s. 1, ch. 2009-187; s. 10, ch. 2010-5; s. 2, ch. 2010-205; s. 7, 

ch. 2011-208; s. 8, ch. 2012-116. 

120. 525Meetings, hearings, and workshops.— 

(1 )Except in the case of emergency meetings, each agency shall give notice of public meetings, hearings, 

and workshops by publication in the Florida Administrative Weekly and on the agency's website not less than 7 

days before the event. The notice shaLt incLude a statement of the generaL subject matter to be considered. 

(2)An agenda shall be prepared by the agency in time to ensure that a copy of the agenda may be 

received at least 7 days before the event by any person in the state who requests a copy and who pays the 

reasonable cost of the copy. The agenda, aLong with any meeting materiaLs avaiLabLe in electronic form 

excluding confidential and exempt information, shaLL be published on the agency's website. The agenda shall 

contain the items to be considered in order of presentation. After the agenda has been made avaiLabLe, a 

change shall be made only for good cause, as determined by the person designated to preside, and stated in 

the record. Notification of such change shalL be at the earliest practicable time. 

(3)If an agency finds that an immediate danger to the public heaLth, safety, or weLfare requires 

immediate action, the agency may hold an emergency public meeting and give notice of such meeting by any 

procedure that is fair under the circumstances and necessary to protect the public interest, if: 

(a)The procedure provides at least the proceduraL protection given by other statutes, the State 

Constitution, or the United States Constitution. 

(b)The agency takes only that action necessary to protect the public interest under the emergency 

procedure. 

(c)The agency pubLishes in writing at the time of, or prior to, its action the specific facts and reasons for 

finding an immediate danger to the public heaLth, safety, or welfare and its reasons for concluding that the 

procedure used is fair under the circumstances. The agency findings of immediate danger, necessity, and 

procedural fairness shall be judicialLy reviewable. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 96-159; s. 3, ch. 2009-187. 

120.53Maintenance of orders; indexing; listing; organizational information.— 

(1)(a)Each agency shaLl maintain: 

1 .All agency final orders. 

2.a.A current hierarchicaL subject-matter index, identifying for the public any ruLe or order as specified 

in this subparagraph. 

b.In lieu of the requirement for making avaiLable for public inspection and copying a hierarchical subject- 

matter index of its orders, an agency may maintain and make availabLe for pubLic use an eLectronic database 



of its orders that allows users to research and retrieve the full texts of agency orders by devising an ad hoc 

indexing system employing any logical search terms in common usage which are composed by the user and 

which are contained in the orders of the agency or by descriptive information about the order which may not 

be specifically contained in the order. 

c.The agency orders that must be indexed, unless excluded under paragraph (c) or paragraph (d), 

include: 

(I)Each final agency order resulting from a proceeding under s. 120.57 or s. 120.573. 

(II)Each final agency order rendered pursuant to s. 120.57(4) which contains a statement of agency poLicy 

that may be the basis of future agency decisions or that may otherwise contain a statement of precedential 

value. 

(III)Each declaratory statement issued by an agency. 

(IV)Each final order resulting from a proceeding under s. 120.56 or s. 120.574. 

3.A list of all final orders rendered pursuant to s. 120.57(4) which have been excluded from the indexing 

requirement of this section, with the approval of the Department of State, because they do not contain 

statements of agency policy or statements of precedential value. The List must include the name of the 

parties to the proceeding and the number assigned to the final order. 

4.All final orders listed pursuant to subparagraph 3. 

(b)An agency finaL order that must be indexed or listed pursuant to paragraph (a) must be indexed or 

listed within 120 days after the order is rendered. Each final order that must be indexed or Listed pursuant to 

paragraph (a) must have attached a copy of the complete text of any materials incorporated by reference; 

however, if the quantity of the materials incorporated makes attachment of the complete text of the 

materials impractical, the order may contain a statement of the location of such materials and the manner in 

which the pubLic may inspect or obtain copies of the materials incorporated by reference. The Department of 

State shall estabLish by rule procedures for indexing final orders, and procedures of agencies for indexing 

orders must be approved by the department. 

(c)Each agency must receive approval in writing from the Department of State for: 

1 .The specific types and categories of agency finaL orders that may be excluded from the indexing and 

public inspection requirements, as determined by the department pursuant to paragraph (d). 

2.The method for maintaining indexes, lists, and final orders that must be indexed or Listed and made 

available to the pubLic. 

3.The method by which the public may inspect or obtain copies of indexes, lists, and final orders. 

4.A sequentiaL numbering system which numbers aLl final orders required to be indexed or listed pursuant 

to paragraph (a), in the order rendered. 

5.Proposed ruLes for implementing the requirements of this section for indexing and making final orders 



available for public inspection. 

(d)In determining which finaL orders may be excLuded from the indexing and pubLic inspection 

requirements, the Department of State may consider all factors specified by an agency, including precedential 

value, legal significance, and purpose. OnLy agency final orders that are of limited or no precedential value, 

that are of limited or no Legal significance, or that are ministeriaL in nature may be excluded. 

(e)Each agency shalL specify the specific types or categories of agency final orders that are excluded from 

the indexing and public inspection requirements. 

(f)Each agency shaLl specify the Location or locations where agency indexes, lists, and finaL orders that 

are required to be indexed or listed are maintained and shall specify the method or procedure by which the 

public may inspect or obtain copies of indexes, Lists, and final orders. 

(g)Each agency shalL specify aLL systems in use by the agency to search and Locate agency final orders that 

are required to be indexed or listed, incLuding, but not limited to, any automated system. An agency shall 

make the search capabilities empLoyed by the agency available to the pubLic subject to reasonable terms and 

conditions, including a reasonabLe charge, as provided by s. 119.07. The agency shaLL specify how assistance 

and information pertaining to final orders may be obtained. 

(h)Each agency shalL specify the numbering system used to identify agency finaL orders. 

(2)(a)An agency may comply with subparagraphs (1 )(a)1. and 2. by designating an officiaL reporter to 

publish and index by subject matter each agency order that must be indexed and made availabLe to the 

public, or by electronically transmitting to the division a copy of such orders for posting on the division's 

website. An agency is in compliance with subparagraph (1 )(a)3. if it publishes in its designated reporter a list 

of each agency final order that must be Listed and preserves each listed order and makes it avaiLabLe for 

public inspection and copying. 

(b)An agency may pubLish its official reporter or may contract with a publishing firm to pubLish its official 

reporter; however, if an agency contracts with a publishing firm to publish its reporter, the agency is 

responsible for the quality, timeLiness, and usefulness of the reporter. The Department of State may publish 

an official reporter for an agency or may contract with a publishing firm to pubLish the reporter for the 

agency; however, if the department contracts for publication of the reporter, the department is responsibLe 

for the quality, timeliness, and usefuLness of the reporter. A reporter that is designated by an agency as its 

official reporter and approved by the Department of State constitutes the official compilation of the 

administrative final orders for that agency. 

(c)A reporter that is published by the Department of State may be made avaiLabLe by annual subscription, 

and each agency that designates an officiaL reporter published by the department may be charged a space 

rate payable to the department. The subscription rate and the space rate must be equitabLy apportioned to 

cover the costs of publishing the reporter. 



(d)An agency that designates an official reporter need not publish the full text of an agency final order 

that is rendered pursuant to s. 120.57(4) and that must be indexed pursuant to paragraph (1 )(a), if the final 

order is preserved by the agency and made availabLe for public inspection and copying and the official 

reporter indexes the final order and includes a synopsis of the order. A synopsis must include the names of the 

parties to the order; any ruLe, statute, or constitutional provision pertinent to the order; a summary of the 

facts, if included in the order, which are pertinent to the finaL disposition; and a summary of the final 

disposition. 

(3)Agency orders that must be indexed or Listed are documents of continuing Legal vaLue and must be 

permanently preserved and made avaiLable to the public. Each agency to which this chapter applies shall 

provide, under the direction of the Department of State, for the preservation of orders as required by this 

chapter and for maintaining an index to those orders. 

(4)Each agency must provide any person who makes a request with a written description of its 

organization and the generaL course of its operations. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 2, ch. 75-191; s. 2, ch. 76-131; s. 2, ch. 79-299; s. 1, ch. 81-296; s. 2, ch. 81-309; s. 8, ch. 83-92; 

s. 34, ch. 83-217; s. 3, ch. 83-273; s. 1, ch. 84-203; s. 77, ch. 85-180; s. 2, ch. 87-100; s. 2, ch. 88-384; s. 44, ch. 90-136; s. 35, 

ch. 90-302; s. 2, ch. 91-30; s. 79, ch. 91-45; s. 1, ch. 91-191; s. 1, ch. 92-166; s. 143, ch. 92-279; s. 55, ch. 92-326; s. 757, ch. 95- 

147; s. 5, ch. 96-159; s. 2, ch. 96-423; s. 2, ch. 97-176; s. 3, ch. 2008-104. 

120.53 3Coordination of indexing by Department of State.—The Department of State shall: 

(1 )Administer the coordination of the indexing, management, preservation, and avaiLabiLity of agency 

orders that must be indexed or Listed pursuant to s. 120.53(1). 

(2)Provide, by rule, guidelines for the indexing of agency orders. More than one system for indexing may 

be approved by the Department of State, including systems or methods in use, or proposed for use, by an 

agency. More than one system may be approved for use by a single agency as best serves the needs of that 

agency and the pubLic. 

(3)Provide, by rule, for storage and retrieval systems to be maintained by agencies for indexing, and 

making availabLe, agency orders by subject matter. The Department of State may approve more than one 

system, including systems in use, or proposed for use, by an agency. Storage and retrievaL systems that may 

be used by an agency include, without limitation, a designated reporter or reporters, a microfiLming system, 

an automated system, or any other system considered appropriate by the Department of State. 

(4)Determine which final orders must be indexed for each agency. 

(5)Require each agency to report to the department concerning which types or categories of agency 

orders establish precedent for each agency. 

History.—s. 9, ch. 91-30; s. 1, ch. 91-191; s. 7, ch. 96-159. 



120. 536Ru lemaking authority; repeal; challenge.— 

(1 )A grant of rulemaking authority is necessary but not sufficient to alLow an agency to adopt a ruLe; a 

specific law to be impLemented is also required. An agency may adopt only ruLes that implement or interpret 

the specific powers and duties granted by the enabLing statute. No agency shalL have authority to adopt a rule 

only because it is reasonabLy reLated to the purpose of the enabLing legisLation and is not arbitrary and 

capricious or is within the agency's cLass of powers and duties, nor shalL an agency have the authority to 

implement statutory provisions setting forth general legislative intent or poLicy. Statutory Language granting 

rulemaking authority or generaLLy describing the powers and functions of an agency shall be construed to 

extend no further than implementing or interpreting the specific powers and duties conferred by the enabling 

statute. 

(2)Unless otherwise expressly provided by law: 

(a)The repeal of one or more provisions of law implemented by a ruLe that on its face implements only 

the provision or provisions repealed and no other provision of Law nullifies the rule. Whenever notice of the 

nullification of a rule under this subsection is received from the committee or otherwise, the Department of 

State shall remove the ruLe from the FLorida Administrative Code as of the effective date of the law effecting 

the nullification and update the historicaL notes for the code to show the ruLe repealed by operation of Law. 

(b)The repeal of one or more provisions of law implemented by a ruLe that on its face implements the 

provision or provisions repeaLed and one or more other provisions of law nullifies the ruLe or applicable portion 

of the rule to the extent that it impLements the repealed law. The agency having authority to repeal or amend 

the rule shall, within 180 days after the effective date of the repeaLing law, pubLish a notice of rule 

development identifying aLl portions of ruLes affected by the repealing Law, and if no notice is timely 

published the operation of each rule implementing a repealed provision of law shall be suspended until such 

notice is published. 

(c)The repeal of one or more provisions of law that, other than as provided in paragraph (a) or paragraph 

(b), causes a rule or portion of a rule to be of uncertain enforceability requires the Department of State to 

treat the rule as provided by s. 120.555. A rule shall be considered to be of uncertain enforceabiLity under this 

paragraph if the division notifies the Department of State that a rule or a portion of the rule has been 

invalidated in a division proceeding based upon a repeal of law, or the committee gives written notification to 

the Department of State and the agency having power to amend or repeal the ruLe that a law has been 

repealed creating doubt about whether the rule is still in full force and effect. 

(3)The Administrative Procedures Committee or any substantially affected person may petition an agency 

to repeal any rule, or portion thereof, because it exceeds the rulemaking authority permitted by this section. 

Not later than 30 days after the date of fiLing the petition if the agency is headed by an individual, or not 

later than 45 days if the agency is headed by a coLlegial body, the agency shall initiate ruLemaking proceedings 





applies to rules. 

(f)An agency may adopt ruLes authorized by Law and necessary to the proper implementation of a statute 

prior to the effective date of the statute, but the rules may not be effective untiL the statute upon which they 

are based is effective. An agency may not adopt retroactive rules, including retroactive rules intended to 

clarify existing law, unLess that power is expressly authorized by statute. 

(g)Each rule adopted shaLL contain only one subject. 

(h)In rulemaking proceedings, the agency may recognize any materiaL which may be judiciaLLy noticed, 

and it may provide that materials so recognized be incorporated into the record of the proceeding. Before the 

record of any proceeding is completed, all parties shall be provided a list of these materiaLs and given a 

reasonable opportunity to examine them and offer written comments or written rebuttaL. 

(i)1 .A rule may incorporate materiaL by reference but only as the materiaL exists on the date the rule is 

adopted. For purposes of the rule, changes in the material are not effective unLess the ruLe is amended to 

incorporate the changes. 

2.An agency rule that incorporates by specific reference another rule of that agency automaticaLLy 

incorporates subsequent amendments to the referenced rule unless a contrary intent is cLearLy indicated in 

the referencing ruLe. A notice of amendments to a rule that has been incorporated by specific reference in 

other rules of that agency must expLain the effect of those amendments on the referencing ruLes. 

3.In rules adopted after December 31, 2010, materiaL may not be incorporated by reference unless: 

a.The material has been submitted in the prescribed electronic format to the Department of State and 

the full text of the material can be made availabLe for free public access through an eLectronic hyperlink from 

the rule making the reference in the Florida Administrative Code; or 

b.The agency has determined that posting the material on the Internet for purposes of public 

examination and inspection wouLd constitute a violation of federal copyright law, in which case a statement to 

that effect, aLong with the address of locations at the Department of State and the agency at which the 

material is availabLe for public inspection and examination, must be included in the notice required by 

subparagraph (3)(a)1. 

4.A rule may not be amended by reference only. Amendments must set out the amended rule in full in 

the same manner as required by the State Constitution for Laws. 

5.Notwithstanding any contrary provision in this section, when an adopted ruLe of the Department of 

Environmental Protection or a water management district is incorporated by reference in the other agency's 

rule to implement a provision of part IV of chapter 373, subsequent amendments to the rule are not effective 

as to the incorporating ruLe unLess the agency incorporating by reference notifies the committee and the 

Department of State of its intent to adopt the subsequent amendment, pubLishes notice of such intent in the 

Florida Administrative Weekly, and files with the Department of State a copy of the amended rule 



incorporated by reference. Changes in the rule incorporated by reference are effective as to the other agency 

20 days after the date of the pubLished notice and fiLing with the Department of State. The Department of 

State shall amend the history note of the incorporating rule to show the effective date of such change. Any 

substantially affected person may, within 14 days after the date of publication of the notice of intent in the 

Florida Administrative Weekly, file an objection to rulemaking with the agency. The objection shall specify 

the portions of the rule incorporated by reference to which the person objects and the reasons for the 

objection. The agency shaLl not have the authority under this subparagraph to adopt those portions of the rule 

specified in such objection. The agency shaLL publish notice of the objection and of its action in response in 

the next avaiLable issue of the FLorida Administrative Weekly. 

6.The Department of State may adopt by ruLe requirements for incorporating materiaLs pursuant to this 

paragraph. 

(j)A rule published in the FLorida Administrative Code must be indexed by the Department of State within 

90 days after the ruLe is fiLed. The Department of State shall by ruLe estabLish procedures for indexing rules. 

(k)An agency head may delegate the authority to initiate rule development under subsection (2); 

however, rulemaking responsibilities of an agency head under subparagraph (3)(a)1., subparagraph (3)(e)1., or 

subparagraph (3)(e)6. may not be deLegated or transferred. 

(2)RULE DEVELOPMENT; WORKSHOPS; N EGOTIATED RULEMAKING.— 

(a)Except when the intended action is the repeaL of a rule, agencies shaLl provide notice of the 

development of proposed rules by publication of a notice of rule development in the Florida Administrative 

Weekly before providing notice of a proposed rule as required by paragraph (3)(a). The notice of ruLe 

development shall indicate the subject area to be addressed by rule development, provide a short, plain 

explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed rule, cite the specific LegaL authority for the proposed 

rule, and include the preliminary text of the proposed rules, if available, or a statement of how a person may 

promptly obtain, without cost, a copy of any preliminary draft, if available. 

(b)All rules should be drafted in readabLe language. The language is readabLe if: 

1 .It avoids the use of obscure words and unnecessarily long or complicated constructions; and 

2.It avoids the use of unnecessary technical or specialized language that is understood onLy by members 

of particular trades or professions. 

(c)An agency may hold pubLic workshops for purposes of ruLe development. An agency must hold public 

workshops, including workshops in various regions of the state or the agency's service area, for purposes of 

rule development if requested in writing by any affected person, unless the agency head explains in writing 

why a workshop is unnecessary. The expLanation is not final agency action subject to review pursuant to ss. 

120.569 and 120.57. The failure to provide the expLanation when required may be a material error in 

procedure pursuant to s. 120.56(1)(c). When a workshop or public hearing is held, the agency must ensure 



that the persons responsible for preparing the proposed rule are available to explain the agency's proposal 

and to respond to questions or comments regarding the rule being deveLoped. The workshop may be 

facilitated or mediated by a neutraL third person, or the agency may empLoy other types of dispute resoLution 

alternatives for the workshop that are appropriate for ruLe development. Notice of a rule deveLopment 

workshop shall be by publication in the FLorida Administrative Weekly not less than 14 days prior to the date 

on which the workshop is scheduled to be held and shall indicate the subject area which wilL be addressed; 

the agency contact person; and the place, date, and time of the workshop. 

(d)1 .An agency may use negotiated ruLemaking in developing and adopting rules. The agency should 

consider the use of negotiated ruLemaking when complex rules are being drafted or strong opposition to the 

rules is anticipated. The agency shouLd consider, but is not limited to considering, whether a baLanced 

committee of interested persons who wiLl negotiate in good faith can be assembLed, whether the agency is 

willing to support the work of the negotiating committee, and whether the agency can use the group 

consensus as the basis for its proposed ruLe. Negotiated rulemaking uses a committee of designated 

representatives to draft a mutuaLLy acceptabLe proposed rule. 

2.An agency that chooses to use the negotiated rulemaking process described in this paragraph shaLL 

publish in the FLorida Administrative WeekLy a notice of negotiated rulemaking that incLudes a listing of the 

representative groups that will be invited to participate in the negotiated rulemaking process. Any person who 

believes that his or her interest is not adequately represented may appLy to participate within 30 days after 

publication of the notice. ALL meetings of the negotiating committee shalL be noticed and open to the public 

pursuant to the provisions of this chapter. The negotiating committee shaLL be chaired by a neutraL facilitator 

or mediator. 

3.The agency's decision to use negotiated ruLemaking, its selection of the representative groups, and 

approval or denial of an application to participate in the negotiated rulemaking process are not agency action. 

Nothing in this subparagraph is intended to affect the rights of an affected person to chalLenge a proposed 

rule developed under this paragraph in accordance with s. 120.56(2). 

(3)ADOPTION PROCEDURES.— 

(a)Notices. 

1 .Prior to the adoption, amendment, or repeaL of any rule other than an emergency rule, an agency, 

upon approval of the agency head, shall give notice of its intended action, setting forth a short, pLain 

explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed action; the fuLl text of the proposed ruLe or amendment 

and a summary thereof; a reference to the grant of rulemaking authority pursuant to which the ruLe is 

adopted; and a reference to the section or subsection of the Florida Statutes or the Laws of Florida being 

implemented or interpreted. The notice must include a summary of the agency's statement of the estimated 

regulatory costs, if one has been prepared, based on the factors set forth in s. 120.541 (2); a statement that 



any person who wishes to provide the agency with information regarding the statement of estimated 

regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative as provided by s. 120.541(1), 

must do so in writing within 21 days after pubLication of the notice; and a statement as to whether, based on 

the statement of the estimated reguLatory costs or other information expressly relied upon and described by 

the agency if no statement of reguLatory costs is required, the proposed ruLe is expected to require Legislative 

ratification pursuant to s. 120.541 (3). The notice must state the procedure for requesting a pubLic hearing on 

the proposed rule. Except when the intended action is the repeal of a rule, the notice must include a 

reference both to the date on which and to the pLace where the notice of ruLe development that is required 

by subsection (2) appeared. 

2.The notice shaLL be published in the Florida Administrative Weekly not Less than 28 days prior to the 

intended action. The proposed ruLe shaLl be avaiLable for inspection and copying by the pubLic at the time of 

the publication of notice. 

3.The notice shaLL be maiLed to aLL persons named in the proposed rule and to all persons who, at Least 14 

days prior to such mailing, have made requests of the agency for advance notice of its proceedings. The 

agency shall also give such notice as is prescribed by rule to those particuLar classes of persons to whom the 

intended action is directed. 

4.The adopting agency shaLL file with the committee, at least 21 days prior to the proposed adoption 

date, a copy of each rule it proposes to adopt; a copy of any material incorporated by reference in the rule; a 

detailed written statement of the facts and circumstances justifying the proposed ruLe; a copy of any 

statement of estimated reguLatory costs that has been prepared pursuant to s. 120.541; a statement of the 

extent to which the proposed rule reLates to federaL standards or rules on the same subject; and the notice 

required by subparagraph 1. 

(b)Special matters to be considered in rule adoption.— 

1 .Statement of estimated regulatory costs.—Before the adoption, amendment, or repeaL of any rule other 

than an emergency ruLe, an agency is encouraged to prepare a statement of estimated regulatory costs of the 

proposed ruLe, as provided by s. 120.541. However, an agency must prepare a statement of estimated 

regulatory costs of the proposed rule, as provided by s. 120.541, if: 

a.The proposed rule will have an adverse impact on small business; or 

b.The proposed rule is likely to directly or indirectly increase reguLatory costs in excess of $200,000 in 

the aggregate in this state within 1 year after the implementation of the ruLe. 

2.Small businesses, small counties, and small cities.— 

a.Each agency, before the adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule, shaLL consider the impact of the 

rule on small businesses as defined by s. 288.703 and the impact of the rule on small counties or smaLl cities 

as defined by s. 120.52. Whenever practicable, an agency shall tier its rules to reduce disproportionate 



impacts on small businesses, small counties, or small cities to avoid regulating small businesses, small 

counties, or small cities that do not contribute significantly to the problem the rule is designed to address. An 

agency may define "small business" to include businesses employing more than 200 persons, may define 

"small county" to include those with populations of more than 75,000, and may define "small city" to include 

those with populations of more than 10,000, if it finds that such a definition is necessary to adapt a rule to 

the needs and problems of small businesses, small counties, or small cities. The agency shall consider each of 

the following methods for reducing the impact of the proposed rule on small businesses, small counties, and 

small cities, or any combination of these entities: 

(I)Establishing less stringent compliance or reporting requirements in the rule. 

(II)Establishing less stringent schedules or deadlines in the rule for compliance or reporting requirements. 

(III)Consolidating or simplifying the rule's compliance or reporting requirements. 

(IV)Establishing performance standards or best management practices to replace design or operational 

standards in the rule. 

(V)Exempting small businesses, small counties, or small cities from any or all requirements of the rule. 

b.(I)If the agency determines that the proposed action will affect small businesses as defined by the 

agency as provided in sub-subparagraph a., the agency shall send written notice of the rule to the rules 

ombudsman in the Executive Office of the Governor at least 28 days before the intended action. 

(II)Each agency shall adopt those regulatory alternatives offered by the rules ombudsman in the Executive 

Office of the Governor and provided to the agency no later than 21 days after the council's receipt of the 

written notice of the rule which it finds are feasible and consistent with the stated objectives of the proposed 

rule and which would reduce the impact on small businesses. When regulatory alternatives are offered by the 

rules ombudsman in the Executive Office of the Governor, the 90-day period for filing the rule in subparagraph 

(e)2. is extended for a period of 21 days. 

(III)If an agency does not adopt all alternatives offered pursuant to this sub-subparagraph, it shall, before 

rule adoption or amendment and pursuant to subparagraph (d)1., file a detailed written statement with the 

committee explaining the reasons for failure to adopt such alternatives. Within 3 working days after the filing 

of such notice, the agency shall send a copy of such notice to the rules ombudsman in the Executive Office of 

the Governor. 

(c)Hearings. 

1 .If the intended action concerns any rule other than one relating exclusively to procedure or practice, 

the agency shall, on the request of any affected person received within 21 days after the date of publication 

of the notice of intended agency action, give affected persons an opportunity to present evidence and 

argument on all issues under consideration. The agency may schedule a public hearing on the rule and, if 

requested by any affected person, shall schedule a public hearing on the rule. When a public hearing is held, 



the agency must ensure that staff are available to explain the agency's proposal and to respond to questions 

or comments regarding the rule. If the agency head is a board or other collegial body created under s. 

20.165(4) or s. 20.43(3)(g), and one or more requested public hearings is scheduLed, the board or other 

collegial body shall conduct at Least one of the public hearings itseLf and may not delegate this responsibility 

without the consent of those persons requesting the public hearing. Any material pertinent to the issues under 

consideration submitted to the agency within 21 days after the date of publication of the notice or submitted 

to the agency between the date of publication of the notice and the end of the final public hearing shall be 

considered by the agency and made a part of the record of the rulemaking proceeding. 

2.Rulemaking proceedings shaLL be governed solely by the provisions of this section unless a person timeLy 

asserts that the person's substantiaL interests will be affected in the proceeding and affirmatively 

demonstrates to the agency that the proceeding does not provide adequate opportunity to protect those 

interests. If the agency determines that the rulemaking proceeding is not adequate to protect the person's 

interests, it shaLl suspend the ruLemaking proceeding and convene a separate proceeding under the provisions 

of ss. 120.569 and 120.57. SimiLarLy situated persons may be requested to join and participate in the separate 

proceeding. Upon conclusion of the separate proceeding, the rulemaking proceeding shalL be resumed. 

(d)Modification or withdrawal of proposed rules.— 

1 .After the finaL pubLic hearing on the proposed rule, or after the time for requesting a hearing has 

expired, if the rule has not been changed from the rule as previously filed with the committee, or contains 

only technical changes, the adopting agency shaLl file a notice to that effect with the committee at least 7 

days prior to filing the rule for adoption. Any change, other than a technical change that does not affect the 

substance of the rule, must be supported by the record of pubLic hearings held on the ruLe, must be in 

response to written material submitted to the agency within 21 days after the date of pubLication of the 

notice of intended agency action or submitted to the agency between the date of publication of the notice 

and the end of the finaL pubLic hearing, or must be in response to a proposed objection by the committee. In 

addition, when any change is made in a proposed ruLe, other than a technical change, the adopting agency 

shall provide a copy of a notice of change by certified mail or actual delivery to any person who requests it in 

writing no later than 21 days after the notice required in paragraph (a). The agency shaLl file the notice of 

change with the committee, aLong with the reasons for the change, and provide the notice of change to 

persons requesting it, at least 21 days prior to fiLing the rule for adoption. The notice of change shall be 

published in the FLorida Administrative WeekLy at least 21 days prior to filing the ruLe for adoption. This 

subparagraph does not appLy to emergency ruLes adopted pursuant to subsection (4). 

2.After the notice required by paragraph (a) and prior to adoption, the agency may withdraw the rule in 

whole or in part. 

3.After adoption and before the rule becomes effective, a rule may be modified or withdrawn onLy in the 



following circumstances: 

a.When the committee objects to the rule; 

b.When a final order, which is not subject to further appeal, is entered in a rule chaLlenge brought 

pursuant to s. 120.56 after the date of adoption but before the rule becomes effective pursuant to 

subparagraph (e)6.; 

c.If the rule requires ratification, when more than 90 days have passed since the ruLe was fiLed for 

adoption without the LegisLature ratifying the ruLe, in which case the rule may be withdrawn but may not be 

modified; or 

d.When the committee notifies the agency that an objection to the rule is being considered, in which 

case the rule may be modified to extend the effective date by not more than 60 days. 

4.The agency shall give notice of its decision to withdraw or modify a rule in the first availabLe issue of 

the publication in which the original notice of ruLemaking was pubLished, shaLl notify those persons described 

in subparagraph (a)3. in accordance with the requirements of that subparagraph, and shaLL notify the 

Department of State if the rule is required to be filed with the Department of State. 

5.After a rule has become effective, it may be repealed or amended only through the rulemaking 

procedures specified in this chapter. 

(e)Filing for final adoption; effective date.— 

1 .If the adopting agency is required to publish its rules in the FLorida Administrative Code, the agency, 

upon approval of the agency head, shall fiLe with the Department of State three certified copies of the rule it 

proposes to adopt; one copy of any materiaL incorporated by reference in the ruLe, certified by the agency; a 

summary of the rule; a summary of any hearings held on the rule; and a detaiLed written statement of the 

facts and circumstances justifying the rule. Agencies not required to publish their rules in the Florida 

Administrative Code shalL file one certified copy of the proposed rule, and the other material required by this 

subparagraph, in the office of the agency head, and such rules shall be open to the pubLic. 

2.A rule may not be fiLed for adoption Less than 28 days or more than 90 days after the notice required by 

paragraph (a), untiL 21 days after the notice of change required by paragraph (d), until 14 days after the final 

public hearing, until 21 days after a statement of estimated reguLatory costs required under s. 120.541 has 

been provided to all persons who submitted a lower cost regulatory alternative and made available to the 

public, or until the administrative Law judge has rendered a decision under s. 120.56(2), whichever applies. 

When a required notice of change is published prior to the expiration of the time to fiLe the ruLe for adoption, 

the period during which a ruLe must be filed for adoption is extended to 45 days after the date of publication. 

If notice of a public hearing is published prior to the expiration of the time to fiLe the ruLe for adoption, the 

period during which a rule must be fiLed for adoption is extended to 45 days after adjournment of the final 

hearing on the rule, 21 days after receipt of alL material authorized to be submitted at the hearing, or 21 days 



after receipt of the transcript, if one is made, whichever is latest. The term "pubLic hearing" incLudes any 

public meeting held by any agency at which the rule is considered. If a petition for an administrative 

determination under s. 120.56(2) is filed, the period during which a rule must be filed for adoption is 

extended to 60 days after the administrative law judge files the finaL order with the clerk or untiL 60 days 

after subsequent judicial review is compLete. 

3.At the time a rule is fiLed, the agency shalL certify that the time limitations prescribed by this 

paragraph have been compLied with, that alL statutory rulemaking requirements have been met, and that 

there is no administrative determination pending on the rule. 

4.At the time a rule is fiLed, the committee shaLL certify whether the agency has responded in writing to 

all material and timely written comments or written inquiries made on behaLf of the committee. The 

department shaLl reject any ruLe that is not filed within the prescribed time Limits; that does not comply with 

all statutory rulemaking requirements and rules of the department; upon which an agency has not responded 

in writing to aLl materiaL and timeLy written inquiries or written comments; upon which an administrative 

determination is pending; or which does not incLude a statement of estimated reguLatory costs, if required. 

5.If a rule has not been adopted within the time Limits imposed by this paragraph or has not been 

adopted in compliance with aLl statutory ruLemaking requirements, the agency proposing the rule shaLL 

withdraw the rule and give notice of its action in the next available issue of the FLorida Administrative 

Weekly. 

6.The proposed rule shall be adopted on being fiLed with the Department of State and become effective 

20 days after being fiLed, on a Later date specified in the notice required by subparagraph (a)1., on a date 

required by statute, or upon ratification by the Legislature pursuant to s. 120.541 (3). Rules not required to be 

fiLed with the Department of State shall become effective when adopted by the agency head, on a later date 

specified by rule or statute, or upon ratification by the LegisLature pursuant to s. 120.541 (3). If the committee 

notifies an agency that an objection to a rule is being considered, the agency may postpone the adoption of 

the rule to accommodate review of the rule by the committee. When an agency postpones adoption of a rule 

to accommodate review by the committee, the 90-day period for fiLing the rule is tolled untiL the committee 

notifies the agency that it has completed its review of the rule. 

For the purposes of this paragraph, the term "administrative determination" does not include subsequent 

judicial review. 

(4)EMERGENCY RULES.— 

(a)If an agency finds that an immediate danger to the public heaLth, safety, or weLfare requires 

emergency action, the agency may adopt any ruLe necessitated by the immediate danger. The agency may 

adopt a rule by any procedure which is fair under the circumstances if: 

1 .The procedure provides at Least the procedural protection given by other statutes, the State 



Constitution, or the United States Constitution. 

2.The agency takes only that action necessary to protect the public interest under the emergency 

procedure. 

3.The agency publishes in writing at the time of, or prior to, its action the specific facts and reasons for 

finding an immediate danger to the public health, safety, or welfare and its reasons for concluding that the 

procedure used is fair under the circumstances. In any event, notice of emergency rules, other than those of 

educational units or units of government with jurisdiction in only one or a part of one county, including the 

full text of the rules, shall be published in the first available issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly and 

provided to the committee along with any material incorporated by reference in the rules. The agency's 

findings of immediate danger, necessity, and procedural fairness shall be judicially reviewable. 

(b)Rules pertaining to the public health, safety, or welfare shall include rules pertaining to perishable 

agricultural commodities or rules pertaining to the interpretation and implementation of the requirements of 

chapters 97-102 and chapter 105 of the Election Code. 

(c)An emergency rule adopted under this subsection shall not be effective for a period longer than 90 

days and shall not be renewable, except when the agency has initiated rulemaking to adopt rules addressing 

the subject of the emergency rule and either: 

1 .A challenge to the proposed rules has been filed and remains pending; or 

2.The proposed rules are awaiting ratification by the Legislature pursuant to s. 120.541 (3). 

Nothing in this paragraph prohibits the agency from adopting a rule or rules identical to the emergency rule 

through the rulemaking procedures specified in subsection (3). 

(d)Subject to applicable constitutional and statutory provisions, an emergency rule becomes effective 

immediately on filing, or on a date less than 20 days thereafter if specified in the rule, if the adopting agency 

finds that such effective date is necessary because of immediate danger to the public health, safety, or 

welfare. 

(5)UNIFORM RULES.— 

(a)1.By July 1, 1997, the Administration Commission shall adopt one or more sets of uniform rules of 

procedure which shall be reviewed by the committee and filed with the Department of State. Agencies must 

comply with the uniform rules by July 1, 1998. The uniform rules shall establish procedures that comply with 

the requirements of this chapter. On filing with the department, the uniform rules shall be the rules of 

procedure for each agency subject to this chapter unless the Administration Commission grants an exception 

to the agency under this subsection. 

2.An agency may seek exceptions to the uniform rules of procedure by filing a petition with the 

Administration Commission. The Administration Commission shall approve exceptions to the extent necessary 

to implement other statutes, to the extent necessary to conform to any requirement imposed as a condition 



precedent to receipt of federal funds or to permit persons in this state to receive tax benefits under federal 

law, or as required for the most efficient operation of the agency as determined by the Administration 

Commission. The reasons for the exceptions shall be published in the Florida Administrative Weekly. 

3.Agency rules that provide exceptions to the uniform rules shall not be filed with the department unless 

the Administration Commission has approved the exceptions. Each agency that adopts rules that provide 

exceptions to the uniform rules shall publish a separate chapter in the Florida Administrative Code that 

delineates clearly the provisions of the agency's rules that provide exceptions to the uniform rules and 

specifies each alternative chosen from among those authorized by the uniform rules. Each chapter shall be 

organized in the same manner as the uniform rules. 

(b)The uniform rules of procedure adopted by the commission pursuant to this subsection shall include, 

but are not limited to: 

1 .Uniform rules for the scheduling of public meetings, hearings, and workshops. 

2.Uniform rules for use by each state agency that provide procedures for conducting public meetings, 

hearings, and workshops, and for taking evidence, testimony, and argument at such public meetings, hearings, 

and workshops, in person and by means of communications media technology. The rules shall provide that all 

evidence, testimony, and argument presented shall be afforded equal consideration, regardless of the method 

of communication. If a public meeting, hearing, or workshop is to be conducted by means of communications 

media technology, or if attendance may be provided by such means, the notice shall so state. The notice for 

public meetings, hearings, and workshops utilizing communications media technology shall state how persons 

interested in attending may do so and shall name locations, if any, where communications media technology 

facilities will be available. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to diminish the right to inspect public 

records under chapter 119. Limiting points of access to public meetings, hearings, and workshops subject to 

the provisions of s. 286.011 to places not normally open to the public shall be presumed to violate the right of 

access of the public, and any official action taken under such circumstances is void and of no effect. Other 

laws relating to public meetings, hearings, and workshops, including penal and remedial provisions, shall apply 

to public meetings, hearings, and workshops conducted by means of communications media technology, and 

shall be liberally construed in their application to such public meetings, hearings, and workshops. As used in 

this subparagraph, "communications media technology" means the electronic transmission of printed matter, 

audio, full-motion video, freeze-frame video, compressed video, and digital video by any method available. 

3.Uniform rules of procedure for the filing of notice of protests and formal written protests. The 

Administration Commission may prescribe the form and substantive provisions of a required bond. 

4.Uniform rules of procedure for the filing of petitions for administrative hearings pursuant to s. 120.569 

or s. 120.57. Such rules shall require the petition to include: 

a.The identification of the petitioner, including the petitioner's e-mail address, if any, for the 



transmittal of subsequent documents by eLectronic means. 

b.A statement of when and how the petitioner received notice of the agency's action or proposed action. 

c.An explanation of how the petitioner's substantial interests are or will be affected by the action or 

proposed action. 

d.A statement of aLl materiaL facts disputed by the petitioner or a statement that there are no disputed 

facts. 

e.A statement of the uLtimate facts aLLeged, incLuding a statement of the specific facts the petitioner 

contends warrant reversaL or modification of the agency's proposed action. 

f.A statement of the specific rules or statutes that the petitioner contends require reversal or 

modification of the agency's proposed action, incLuding an explanation of how the alLeged facts reLate to the 

specific rules or statutes. 

g.A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action petitioner wishes the 

agency to take with respect to the proposed action. 

5.Uniform rules for the filing of request for administrative hearing by a respondent in agency 

enforcement and discipLinary actions. Such rules shall require a request to incLude: 

a.The name, address, e-mail address, and telephone number of the party making the request and the 

name, address, and teLephone number of the party's counsel or qualified representative upon whom service of 

pleadings and other papers shaLL be made; 

b.A statement that the respondent is requesting an administrative hearing and disputes the material facts 

alleged by the petitioner, in which case the respondent shall identify those materiaL facts that are in dispute, 

or that the respondent is requesting an administrative hearing and does not dispute the material facts alleged 

by the petitioner; and 

c.A reference by file number to the administrative complaint that the party has received from the agency 

and the date on which the agency pLeading was received. 

The agency may provide an eLection-of-rights form for the respondent's use in requesting a hearing, so long 

as any form provided by the agency caLls for the information in sub-subparagraphs a. through c. and does not 

impose any additional requirements on a respondent in order to request a hearing, unLess such requirements 

are specifically authorized by Law. 

6.Uniform rules of procedure for the filing and prompt disposition of petitions for decLaratory 

statements. The ruLes shaLL aLso describe the contents of the notices that must be pubLished in the Florida 

Administrative Weekly under s. 120.565, incLuding any applicable time limit for the filing of petitions to 

intervene or petitions for administrative hearing by persons whose substantial interests may be affected. 

7.Provision of a method by which each agency head shall provide a description of the agency's 

organization and generaL course of its operations. The rules shall require that the statement concerning the 



agency's organization and operations be published on the agency's website. 

8.Uniform rules establishing procedures for granting or denying petitions for variances and waivers 

pursuant to s. 120.542. 

(6)ADOPTION OF FEDERAL STANDARDS.—Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this section, in the 

pursuance of state implementation, operation, or enforcement of federal programs, an agency is empowered 

to adopt rules substantiveLy identicaL to reguLations adopted pursuant to federal law, in accordance with the 

following procedures: 

(a)The agency shaLL pubLish notice of intent to adopt a rule pursuant to this subsection in the FLorida 

Administrative Weekly at least 21 days prior to fiLing the rule with the Department of State. The agency shall 

provide a copy of the notice of intent to adopt a rule to the committee at Least 21 days prior to the date of 

fiLing with the Department of State. Prior to fiLing the rule with the Department of State, the agency shall 

consider any written comments received within 14 days after the date of pubLication of the notice of intent to 

adopt a rule. The ruLe shaLl be adopted upon filing with the Department of State. Substantive changes from 

the rules as noticed shall require repubLishing of notice as required in this subsection. 

(b)Any rule adopted pursuant to this subsection shalL become effective upon the date designated by the 

agency in the notice of intent to adopt a rule; however, no such rule shaLL become effective earlier than the 

effective date of the substantiveLy identicaL federal regulation. 

(c)Any substantially affected person may, within 14 days after the date of pubLication of the notice of 

intent to adopt a ruLe, file an objection to rulemaking with the agency. The objection shaLl specify the 

portions of the proposed rule to which the person objects and the specific reasons for the objection. The 

agency shall not proceed pursuant to this subsection to adopt those portions of the proposed ruLe specified in 

an objection, unLess the agency deems the objection to be frivolous, but may proceed pursuant to subsection 

(3). An objection to a proposed ruLe, which rule in no material respect differs from the requirements of the 

federal regulation upon which it is based, is deemed to be frivolous. 

(d)Whenever any federal reguLation adopted as an agency rule pursuant to this subsection is declared 

invalid or is withdrawn, revoked, repealed, remanded, or suspended, the agency shall, within 60 days 

thereafter, publish a notice of repeal of the substantively identicaL agency rule in the FLorida Administrative 

Weekly. Such repeaL is effective upon pubLication of the notice. Whenever any federal reguLation adopted as 

an agency ruLe pursuant to this subsection is substantially amended, the agency may adopt the amended 

regulation as a rule. If the amended regulation is not adopted as a rule within 180 days after the effective 

date of the amended reguLation, the originaL ruLe is deemed repeaLed and the agency shalL pubLish a notice of 

repeal of the originaL agency ruLe in the next available Florida Administrative WeekLy. 

(e)Whenever aLl or part of any ruLe proposed for adoption by the agency is substantiveLy identicaL to a 

regulation adopted pursuant to federal law, such rule shall be written in a manner so that the rule specifically 



references the regulation whenever possibLe. 

(7)PETITION TO INITIATE RULEMAKING.— 

(a)Any person regulated by an agency or having substantial interest in an agency rule may petition an 

agency to adopt, amend, or repeal a rule or to provide the minimum public information required by this 

chapter. The petition shaLL specify the proposed rule and action requested. Not later than 30 caLendar days 

following the date of filing a petition, the agency shall initiate rulemaking proceedings under this chapter, 

otherwise comply with the requested action, or deny the petition with a written statement of its reasons for 

the denial. 

(b)If the petition fiLed under this subsection is directed to an unadopted ruLe, the agency shaLl, not later 

than 30 days following the date of filing a petition, initiate rulemaking, or provide notice in the FLorida 

Administrative Weekly that the agency will hold a public hearing on the petition within 30 days after 

publication of the notice. The purpose of the public hearing is to consider the comments of the pubLic 

directed to the agency rule which has not been adopted by the ruLemaking procedures or requirements of this 

chapter, its scope and application, and to consider whether the public interest is served adequately by the 

application of the rule on a case-by-case basis, as contrasted with its adoption by the rulemaking procedures 

or requirements set forth in this chapter. 

(c)Within 30 days foLLowing the public hearing provided for by paragraph (b), if the agency does not 

initiate rulemaking or otherwise comply with the requested action, the agency shall pubLish in the FLorida 

Administrative Weekly a statement of its reasons for not initiating ruLemaking or otherwise compLying with the 

requested action, and of any changes it wilL make in the scope or application of the unadopted ruLe. The 

agency shall file the statement with the committee. The committee shaLl forward a copy of the statement to 

the substantive committee with primary oversight jurisdiction of the agency in each house of the LegisLature. 

The committee or the committee with primary oversight jurisdiction may hold a hearing directed to the 

statement of the agency. The committee hoLding the hearing may recommend to the Legislature the 

introduction of legislation making the rule a statutory standard or limiting or otherwise modifying the 

authority of the agency. 

(8)RULEMAKING RECORD.—In alL ruLemaking proceedings the agency shall compile a ruLemaking record. 

The record shall include, if applicable, copies of: 

(a)All notices given for the proposed ruLe. 

(b)Any statement of estimated reguLatory costs for the rule. 

(c)A written summary of hearings on the proposed ruLe. 

(d)The written comments and responses to written comments as required by this section and s. 120.541. 

(e)All notices and findings made under subsection (4). 

(f)AIL materials filed by the agency with the committee under subsection (3). 



(g)A1l materials filed with the Department of State under subsection (3). 

(h)A11 written inquiries from standing committees of the Legislature concerning the rule. 

Each state agency shall retain the record of rulemaking as long as the rule is in effect. When a rule is no 

longer in effect, the record may be destroyed pursuant to the records-retention schedule developed under s. 

257.36(6). 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 3, ch. 75-191; s. 3, ch. 76-131; ss. 1, 2, ch. 76-276; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 13, ch. 77-290; s. 3, ch. 

77-453; s. 2, ch. 78-28; s. 2, ch. 78-425; s. 7, ch. 79-3; s. 3, ch. 79-299; s. 69, ch. 79-400; s. 5, ch. 80-391; s. 1, ch. 81-309; s. 2, 

ch. 83-351; s. 1, ch. 84-173; s. 2, ch. 84-203; s. 7, ch. 85-104; s. 1, ch. 86-30; s. 3, ch. 87-385; s. 36, ch. 90-302; ss. 2, 4, 7, ch. 

92-166; s. 63, ch. 93-187; s. 758, ch. 95-147; s. 6, ch. 95-295; s. 10, ch. 96-159; s. 6, ch. 96-320; s. 9, ch. 96-370; s. 3, ch. 97- 

176; s. 3, ch. 98-200; s. 4, ch. 99-379; s. 9, ch. 2001 -75; s. 2, ch. 2003-94; s. 50, ch. 2005-278; s. 3, ch. 2006-82; ss. 5, 6, ch. 

2008-104; s. 7, ch. 2008-149; s. 4, ch. 2009-187; ss. 1, 5, ch. 2010-279; HJR 9-A, 2010 SpeciaL Session A; s. 49, ch. 2011-142; s. 8, 

ch. 2011-208; s. 1, ch. 2011-225; s. 2, ch. 2012-27; s. 1, ch. 2012-63. 

Note.—The word "council's" refers to the Small Business Regulatory Advisory Council. Section 5, ch. 2012- 

27, repealed s. 288.7001, which created the council, and other provisions in ch. 201 2-27 reassigned the 

council's duties to the rules ombudsman in the Executive Office of the Governor. 

120.54lStatement of estimated regulatory costs.— 

(1)(a)Within 21 days after publication of the notice required under s. 120.54(3)(a), a substantially 

affected person may submit to an agency a good faith written proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative 

to a proposed rule which substantially accomplishes the objectives of the law being implemented. The 

proposal may include the alternative of not adopting any rule if the proposal explains how the lower costs and 

objectives of the law will be achieved by not adopting any rule. If such a proposal is submitted, the 90-day 

period for filing the rule is extended 21 days. Upon the submission of the lower cost regulatory alternative, 

the agency shall prepare a statement of estimated regulatory costs as provided in subsection (2), or shall 

revise its prior statement of estimated regulatory costs, and either adopt the alternative or provide a 

statement of the reasons for rejecting the alternative in favor of the proposed rule. 

(b)If a proposed rule will have an adverse impact on small business or if the proposed rule is likely to 

directly or indirectly increase regulatory costs in excess of $200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after the 

implementation of the rule, the agency shall prepare a statement of estimated regulatory costs as required by 

s. 120.54(3)(b). 

(c)The agency shall revise a statement of estimated regulatory costs if any change to the rule made 

under s. 120.54(3)(d) increases the regulatory costs of the rule. 

(d)At least 21 days before filing the rule for adoption, an agency that is required to revise a statement of 

estimated regulatory costs shall provide the statement to the person who submitted the lower cost regulatory 

alternative and to the committee and shall provide notice on the agency's website that it is available to the 



public. 

(e)Notwithstanding s. 120.56(1)(c), the failure of the agency to prepare a statement of estimated 

regulatory costs or to respond to a written Lower cost regulatory alternative as provided in this subsection is a 

material failure to follow the applicable ruLemaking procedures or requirements set forth in this chapter. 

(f)An agency's failure to prepare a statement of estimated regulatory costs or to respond to a written 

lower cost regulatory alternative may not be raised in a proceeding chaLLenging the validity of a rule pursuant 

to s. 120.52(8)(a) unless: 

1 .Raised in a petition filed no Later than 1 year after the effective date of the rule; and 

2.Raised by a person whose substantiaL interests are affected by the ruLe's regulatory costs. 

(g)A rule that is chalLenged pursuant to s. 120.52(8)(f) may not be declared invaLid unLess: 

1 .The issue is raised in an administrative proceeding within 1 year after the effective date of the rule; 

2.The challenge is to the agency's rejection of a lower cost regulatory alternative offered under 

paragraph (a) or s. 120.54(3)(b)2.b.; and 

3.The substantiaL interests of the person chalLenging the rule are materiaLLy affected by the rejection. 

(2)A statement of estimated reguLatory costs shalL include: 

(a)An economic anaLysis showing whether the rule directly or indirectly: 

1 .Is likely to have an adverse impact on economic growth, private sector job creation or employment, or 

private sector investment in excess of $1 million in the aggregate within 5 years after the implementation of 

the rule; 

2.Is likely to have an adverse impact on business competitiveness, including the ability of persons doing 

business in the state to compete with persons doing business in other states or domestic markets, 

productivity, or innovation in excess of $1 million in the aggregate within 5 years after the impLementation of 

the rule; or 

3.Is likely to increase regulatory costs, incLuding any transactional costs, in excess of $1 million in the 

aggregate within 5 years after the impLementation of the rule. 

(b)A good faith estimate of the number of individuals and entities LikeLy to be required to compLy with 

the rule, together with a generaL description of the types of individuals LikeLy to be affected by the rule. 

(c)A good faith estimate of the cost to the agency, and to any other state and LocaL government entities, 

of implementing and enforcing the proposed rule, and any anticipated effect on state or LocaL revenues. 

(d)A good faith estimate of the transactional costs likely to be incurred by individuals and entities, 

including local government entities, required to comply with the requirements of the ruLe. As used in this 

section, "transactional costs" are direct costs that are readily ascertainable based upon standard business 

practices, and incLude fiLing fees, the cost of obtaining a license, the cost of equipment required to be 

installed or used or procedures required to be employed in complying with the rule, additionaL operating costs 



incurred, the cost of monitoring and reporting, and any other costs necessary to comply with the rule. 

(e)An analysis of the impact on small businesses as defined by s. 288.703, and an analysis of the impact 

on small counties and smaLl cities as defined in s. 120.52. The impact anaLysis for smaLL businesses must 

include the basis for the agency's decision not to implement alternatives that wouLd reduce adverse impacts 

on small businesses. 

(f)Any additional information that the agency determines may be usefuL. 

(g)In the statement or revised statement, whichever applies, a description of any regulatory aLternatives 

submitted under paragraph (1 )(a) and a statement adopting the alternative or a statement of the reasons for 

rejecting the alternative in favor of the proposed rule. 

(3)If the adverse impact or regulatory costs of the rule exceed any of the criteria estabLished in 

paragraph (2)(a), the ruLe shaLL be submitted to the President of the Senate and Speaker of the House of 

Representatives no later than 30 days prior to the next regular legislative session, and the ruLe may not take 

effect until it is ratified by the Legislature. 

1 (4)This section does not appLy to the adoption of emergency rules pursuant to s. 120.54(4) or the 

adoption of federal standards pursuant to s. 120.54(6). 

History.—s. 11, ch. 96-159; s. 4, ch. 97-176; ss. 2, 5, ch. 2010-279; HJR 9-A, 2010 Special Session A; s. 1, ch. 2011-222; s. 2, 

ch. 2011-225. 

Note.—As amended by s. 2, ch. 2011-225. For a description of multiple acts in the same session affecting a 

statutory provision, see preface to the Florida Statutes, "Statutory Construction." Subsection (4) was also 

amended by s. 1, ch. 2011-222, and that version reads: 

Subsection (4) (3) does not apply to the adoption of: 

Federal (a) standards pursuant to s. 120.54(6). 

Triennial (b) updates of and amendments to the Florida Building Code which are expressly authorized by s. 553.73. 

Triennial (c) updates of and amendments to the Florida Fire Prevention Code which are expressly authorized by s. 633.0215. 

120.542Variances and waivers.— 

(1 )Strict application of uniformly appLicabLe rule requirements can Lead to unreasonable, unfair, and 

unintended results in particular instances. The Legislature finds that it is appropriate in such cases to adopt a 

procedure for agencies to provide relief to persons subject to regulation. A pubLic empLoyee is not a person 

subject to regulation under this section for the purpose of petitioning for a variance or waiver to a rule that 

affects that pubLic empLoyee in his or her capacity as a public employee. Agencies are authorized to grant 

variances and waivers to requirements of their ruLes consistent with this section and with rules adopted under 

the authority of this section. An agency may limit the duration of any grant of a variance or waiver or 

otherwise impose conditions on the grant only to the extent necessary for the purpose of the underlying 

statute to be achieved. This section does not authorize agencies to grant variances or waivers to statutes or to 



rules required by the Federal Government for the agency's implementation or retention of any federaLly 

approved or delegated program, except as aLlowed by the program or when the variance or waiver is aLso 

approved by the appropriate agency of the Federal Government. This section is suppLemental to, and does not 

abrogate, the variance and waiver provisions in any other statute. 

(2)Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person subject to the rule demonstrates that the 

purpose of the underlying statute wilL be or has been achieved by other means by the person and when 

application of a rule would create a substantiaL hardship or would violate principles of fairness. For purposes 

of this section, "substantial hardship" means a demonstrated economic, technoLogical, LegaL, or other type of 

hardship to the person requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes of this section, "principles of fairness" 

are violated when the literaL appLication of a rule affects a particular person in a manner significantly 

different from the way it affects other simiLarly situated persons who are subject to the ruLe. 

(3)The Governor and Cabinet, sitting as the Administration Commission, shall adopt uniform ruLes of 

procedure pursuant to the requirements of s. 120.54(5) establishing procedures for granting or denying 

petitions for variances and waivers. The uniform ruLes shall include procedures for the granting, denying, or 

revoking of emergency and temporary variances and waivers. Such provisions may provide for expedited 

timeframes, waiver of or limited pubLic notice, and Limitations on comments on the petition in the case of 

such temporary or emergency variances and waivers. 

(4)Agencies shall advise persons of the remedies available through this section and shall provide copies of 

this section, the uniform ruLes on variances and waivers, and, if requested, the underLying statute, to persons 

who inquire about the possibiLity of reLief from rule requirements. 

(5)A person who is subject to regulation by an agency rule may file a petition with that agency, with a 

copy to the committee, requesting a variance or waiver from the agency's rule. In addition to any 

requirements mandated by the uniform rules, each petition shall specify: 

(a)The rule from which a variance or waiver is requested. 

(b)The type of action requested. 

(c)The specific facts that wouLd justify a waiver or variance for the petitioner. 

(d)The reason why the variance or the waiver requested would serve the purposes of the underLying 

statute. 

(6)Within 15 days after receipt of a petition for variance or waiver, an agency shall provide notice of the 

petition to the Department of State, which shall publish notice of the petition in the first avaiLable issue of 

the Florida Administrative Weekly. The notice shaLl contain the name of the petitioner, the date the petition 

was filed, the rule number and nature of the ruLe from which variance or waiver is sought, and an explanation 

of how a copy of the petition can be obtained. The uniform rules shall provide a means for interested persons 

to provide comments on the petition. 



(7)Except for requests for emergency variances or waivers, within 30 days after receipt of a petition for a 

variance or waiver, an agency shaLL review the petition and request submittal of aLL additional information 

that the agency is permitted by this section to require. Within 30 days after receipt of such additional 

information, the agency shall review it and may request only that information needed to clarify the additional 

information or to answer new questions raised by or directly related to the additional information. If the 

petitioner asserts that any request for additional information is not authorized by Law or by ruLe of the 

affected agency, the agency shalL proceed, at the petitioner's written request, to process the petition. 

(8)An agency shall grant or deny a petition for variance or waiver within 90 days after receipt of the 

original petition, the Last item of timeLy requested additional material, or the petitioner's written request to 

finish processing the petition. A petition not granted or denied within 90 days after receipt of a completed 

petition is deemed approved. A copy of the order granting or denying the petition shalL be filed with the 

committee and shaLL contain a statement of the relevant facts and reasons supporting the agency's action. 

The agency shall provide notice of the disposition of the petition to the Department of State, which shall 

publish the notice in the next avaiLabLe issue of the Florida Administrative WeekLy. The notice shalL contain 

the name of the petitioner, the date the petition was filed, the rule number and nature of the ruLe from 

which the waiver or variance is sought, a reference to the place and date of publication of the notice of the 

petition, the date of the order denying or approving the variance or waiver, the generaL basis for the agency 

decision, and an explanation of how a copy of the order can be obtained. The agency's decision to grant or 

deny the petition shaLl be supported by competent substantial evidence and is subject to ss. 120.569 and 

120.57. Any proceeding pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57 in regard to a variance or waiver shaLl be limited 

to the agency action on the request for the variance or waiver, except that a proceeding in regard to a 

variance or waiver may be consoLidated with any other proceeding authorized by this chapter. 

(9)Each agency shalL maintain a record of the type and disposition of each petition, incLuding temporary 

or emergency variances and waivers, filed pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 12, ch. 96-159; s. 5, ch. 97-176; s. 37, ch. 2010-102. 

I 20.545Committee review of agency rules.— 

(1 )As a legislative check on legisLativeLy created authority, the committee shaLl examine each proposed 

rule, except for those proposed rules exempted by s. 120.81 (1 )(e) and (2), and its accompanying material, and 

each emergency rule, and may examine any existing rule, for the purpose of determining whether: 

(a)The rule is an invaLid exercise of delegated legisLative authority. 

(b)The statutory authority for the rule has been repealed. 

(c)The rule reiterates or paraphrases statutory material. 

(d)The rule is in proper form. 

(e)The notice given prior to its adoption was sufficient to give adequate notice of the purpose and effect 



of the rule. 

(f)The rule is consistent with expressed legisLative intent pertaining to the specific provisions of law 

which the ruLe impLements. 

(g)The rule is necessary to accomplish the apparent or expressed objectives of the specific provision of 

law which the rule impLements. 

(h)The rule is a reasonable implementation of the Law as it affects the convenience of the general public 

or persons particularly affected by the rule. 

(i)The rule could be made Less compLex or more easily comprehensible to the general public. 

(j)The rule's statement of estimated reguLatory costs complies with the requirements of s. 120.541 and 

whether the rule does not impose reguLatory costs on the regulated person, county, or city which couLd be 

reduced by the adoption of Less costly aLternatives that substantially accomplish the statutory objectives. 

(k)The rule will require additionaL appropriations. 

(l)If the rule is an emergency ruLe, there exists an emergency justifying the adoption of such rule, the 

agency is within its statutory authority, and the rule was adopted in compLiance with the requirements and 

limitations of s. 120.54(4). 

(2)The committee may request from an agency such information as is reasonably necessary for 

examination of a ruLe as required by subsection (1). The committee shalL consuLt with LegisLative standing 

committees having jurisdiction over the subject areas. If the committee objects to a rule, the committee 

shall, within 5 days after the objection, certify that fact to the agency whose rule has been examined and 

include with the certification a statement detailing its objections with particularity. The committee shall 

notify the Speaker of the House of Representatives and the President of the Senate of any objection to an 

agency rule concurrent with certification of that fact to the agency. Such notice shaLL incLude a copy of the 

rule and the statement detailing the committee's objections to the rule. 

(3)Within 30 days after receipt of the objection, if the agency is headed by an individuaL, or within 45 

days after receipt of the objection, if the agency is headed by a coLLegiaL body, the agency shaLL: 

(a)If the ruLe is not yet in effect: 

1 .File notice pursuant to s. 120.54(3)(d) of onLy such modifications as are necessary to address the 

committee's objection; 

2.File notice pursuant to s. 120.54(3)(d) of withdrawal of the rule; or 

3.Notify the committee in writing that it refuses to modify or withdraw the ruLe. 

(b)If the rule is in effect: 

1 .File notice pursuant to s. 120.54(3)(a), without prior notice of rule development, to amend the ruLe to 

address the committee's objection; 

2.File notice pursuant to s. 120.54(3)(a) to repeal the rule; or 



3.Notify the committee in writing that the agency refuses to amend or repeaL the rule. 

(c)If the objection is to the statement of estimated regulatory costs: 

1 .Prepare a corrected statement of estimated regulatory costs, give notice of the availability of the 

corrected statement in the first avaiLabLe issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly, and file a copy of the 

corrected statement with the committee; or 

2.Notify the committee that it refuses to prepare a corrected statement of estimated regulatory costs. 

(4)Failure of the agency to respond to a committee objection to a rule that is not yet in effect within the 

time prescribed in subsection (3) constitutes withdrawal of the rule in its entirety. In this event, the 

committee shall notify the Department of State that the agency, by its failure to respond to a committee 

objection, has elected to withdraw the ruLe. Upon receipt of the committee's notice, the Department of State 

shall publish a notice to that effect in the next available issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. Upon 

publication of the notice, the ruLe shaLL be stricken from the files of the Department of State and the files of 

the agency. 

(5)Failure of the agency to respond to a committee objection to a rule that is in effect within the time 

prescribed in subsection (3) constitutes a refusaL to amend or repeal the rule. 

(6)Failure of the agency to respond to a committee objection to a statement of estimated regulatory 

costs within the time prescribed in subsection (3) constitutes a refusaL to prepare a corrected statement of 

estimated regulatory costs. 

(7)If the committee objects to a ruLe and the agency refuses to modify, amend, withdraw, or repeal the 

rule, the committee shaLL file with the Department of State a notice of the objection, detailing with 

particularity the committee's objection to the ruLe. The Department of State shaLL pubLish this notice in the 

Florida Administrative Weekly. If the ruLe is pubLished in the FLorida Administrative Code, a reference to the 

committee's objection and to the issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly in which the fuLl text thereof 

appears shall be recorded in a history note. 

(8)(a)If the committee objects to a rule, or portion of a rule, and the agency fails to initiate 

administrative action to modify, amend, withdraw, or repeal the rule consistent with the objection within 60 

days after the objection, or thereafter faiLs to proceed in good faith to complete such action, the committee 

may submit to the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives a 

recommendation that Legislation be introduced to address the committee's objection. 

(b)1 .If the committee votes to recommend the introduction of legislation to address the committee's 

objection, the committee shaLL, within 5 days after this determination, certify that fact to the agency whose 

rule or proposed rule has been examined. The committee may request that the agency temporariLy suspend 

the rule or suspend the adoption of the proposed rule, pending consideration of proposed legisLation during 

the next regular session of the LegisLature. 



2.Within 30 days after receipt of the certification, if the agency is headed by an individual, or within 45 

days after receipt of the certification, if the agency is headed by a colLegial body, the agency shaLL: 

a.Temporarily suspend the ruLe or suspend the adoption of the proposed rule; or 

b.Notify the committee in writing that the agency refuses to temporarily suspend the ruLe or suspend the 

adoption of the proposed rule. 

3.If the agency elects to temporariLy suspend the rule or suspend the adoption of the proposed rule, the 

agency shall give notice of the suspension in the Florida Administrative Weekly. The rule or the rule adoption 

process shall be suspended upon pubLication of the notice. An agency may not base any agency action on a 

suspended rule or suspended proposed ruLe, or portion of such rule, prior to expiration of the suspension. A 

suspended rule or suspended proposed ruLe, or portion of such rule, continues to be subject to administrative 

determination and judicial review as provided by Law. 

4.Failure of an agency to respond to committee certification within the time prescribed by subparagraph 

2. constitutes a refusaL to suspend the ruLe or to suspend the adoption of the proposed ruLe. 

(c)The committee shalL prepare proposed LegisLation to address the committee's objection in accordance 

with the ruLes of the Senate and the House of Representatives for prefiling and introduction in the next 

regular session of the Legislature. The proposed LegisLation shall be presented to the President of the Senate 

and the Speaker of the House of Representatives with the committee recommendation. 

(d)If proposed legislation addressing the committee's objection fails to become law, any temporary 

agency suspension shaLl expire. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 76-131; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 6, ch. 80-391; s. 3, ch. 81 -309; s. 4, ch. 87-385; s. 8, ch. 92-166; s. 20, ch. 95- 

280; s. 14, ch. 96-159; s. 16, ch. 2000-151; s. 18, ch. 2008-4; s. 7, ch. 2008-104. 

I 20.55Publication.— 

(1 )The Department of State shalL: 

(a)1 .Through a continuous revision and pubLication system, compile and pubLish eLectronicaLly, on an 

Internet website managed by the department, the "Florida Administrative Code." The Florida Administrative 

Code shall contain alL rules adopted by each agency, citing the grant of rulemaking authority and the specific 

law implemented pursuant to which each rule was adopted, all history notes as authorized in s. 120.545(7), 

complete indexes to all rules contained in the code, and any other materiaL required or authorized by law or 

deemed useful by the department. The eLectronic code shall display each rule chapter currently in effect in 

browse mode and allow full text search of the code and each rule chapter. The department may contract with 

a publishing firm for a printed pubLication; however, the department shall retain responsibiLity for the code as 

provided in this section. The eLectronic publication shaLL be the officiaL compiLation of the administrative ruLes 

of this state. The Department of State shalL retain the copyright over the FLorida Administrative Code. 

2.Rules general in form but applicable to only one schooL district, community college district, or county, 



or a part thereof, or state university rules relating to internal personneL or business and finance shall not be 

published in the FLorida Administrative Code. ExcLusion from publication in the Florida Administrative Code 

shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of such rules. 

3.At the beginning of the section of the code dealing with an agency that files copies of its rules with the 

department, the department shaLl publish the address and telephone number of the executive offices of each 

agency, the manner by which the agency indexes its rules, a listing of all rules of that agency excluded from 

publication in the code, and a statement as to where those rules may be inspected. 

4.Forms shall not be published in the Florida Administrative Code; but any form which an agency uses in 

its dealings with the pubLic, along with any accompanying instructions, shaLL be fiLed with the committee 

before it is used. Any form or instruction which meets the definition of "rule" provided in s. 120.52 shall be 

incorporated by reference into the appropriate ruLe. The reference shall specifically state that the form is 

being incorporated by reference and shall incLude the number, titLe, and effective date of the form and an 

explanation of how the form may be obtained. Each form created by an agency which is incorporated by 

reference in a rule notice of which is given under s. 120.54(3)(a) after December 31, 2007, must cLearly 

display the number, titLe, and effective date of the form and the number of the ruLe in which the form is 

incorporated. 

5.The department shall allow adopted rules and material incorporated by reference to be filed in 

electronic form as prescribed by department ruLe. When a rule is filed for adoption with incorporated material 

in electronic form, the department's publication of the Florida Administrative Code on its Internet website 

must contain a hyperlink from the incorporating reference in the ruLe directly to that material. The 

department may not allow hyperLinks from rules in the Florida Administrative Code to any material other than 

that filed with and maintained by the department, but may allow hyperLinks to incorporated material 

maintained by the department from the adopting agency's website or other sites. 

(b)Electronically publish on an Internet website managed by the department a continuous revision and 

publication entitLed the "Florida Administrative Register," which shaLl serve as the officiaL pubLication and 

must contain: 

1 .All notices required by s. 120.54(3)(a), showing the text of aLL ruLes proposed for consideration. 

2.All notices of public meetings, hearings, and workshops conducted in accordance with s. 120.525, 

including a statement of the manner in which a copy of the agenda may be obtained. 

3.A notice of each request for authorization to amend or repeal an existing uniform rule or for the 

adoption of new uniform rules. 

4.Notice of petitions for declaratory statements or administrative determinations. 

5.A summary of each objection to any ruLe fiLed by the Administrative Procedures Committee. 

6.Any other materiaL required or authorized by Law or deemed useful by the department. 



The department may contract with a pubLishing firm for a printed publication of the FLorida Administrative 

Register and make copies available on an annuaL subscription basis. 

(c)Prescribe by rule the style and form required for rules, notices, and other materiaLs submitted for 

fiLing. 

(d)Charge each agency using the FLorida Administrative Register a space rate to cover the costs related to 

the Florida Administrative Register and the FLorida Administrative Code. 

(e)Maintain a permanent record of aLL notices published in the Florida Administrative Register. 

(2)The Florida Administrative Register Internet website must allow users to: 

(a)Search for notices by type, pubLication date, rule number, word, subject, and agency. 

(b)Search a database that makes available aLL notices published on the website for a period of at Least 5 

years. 

(c)Subscribe to an automated e-maiL notification of selected notices to be sent out before or 

concurrently with publication of the eLectronic Florida Administrative Register. Such notification must include 

in the text of the e-maiL a summary of the content of each notice. 

(d)View agency forms and other materials submitted to the department in eLectronic form and 

incorporated by reference in proposed ruLes. 

(e)Comment on proposed rules. 

(3)Publication of material required by paragraph (1 )(b) on the Florida Administrative Register Internet 

website does not precLude pubLication of such material on an agency's website or by other means. 

(4)Each agency shalL provide copies of its ruLes upon request, with citations to the grant of rulemaking 

authority and the specific law impLemented for each rule. 

(5)Any publication of a proposed ruLe promulgated by an agency, whether published in the FLorida 

Administrative Register or elsewhere, shaLl include, along with the rule, the name of the person or persons 

originating such rule, the name of the agency head who approved the rule, and the date upon which the ruLe 

was approved. 

(6)Access to the Florida Administrative Register Internet website and its contents, incLuding the e-mail 

notification service, shaLl be free for the public. 

(7)(a)All fees and moneys collected by the Department of State under this chapter shaLl be deposited in 

the Records Management Trust Fund for the purpose of paying for costs incurred by the department in 

carrying out this chapter. 

(b)The unencumbered balance in the Records Management Trust Fund for fees collected pursuant to this 

chapter may not exceed $300,000 at the beginning of each fiscal year, and any excess shaLL be transferred to 

the GeneraL Revenue Fund. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 1, ch. 75-107; s. 4, ch. 75-191; s. 5, ch. 76-131; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 4, ch. 77-453; s. 3, ch. 78- 



425; s. 4, ch. 79-299; s. 7, ch. 80-391; s. 4, ch. 81 -309; s. 1, ch. 82-19; s. 1, ch. 82-47; s. 3, ch. 83-351; s. 3, ch. 84-203; s. 17, 

ch. 87-224; s. 1, ch. 87-322; s. 20, ch. 91-45; s. 15, ch. 96-159; s. 896, ch. 2002-387; s. 5, ch. 2004-235; s. 14, ch. 2004-335; s. 4, 

ch. 2006-82; ss. 8, 9, ch. 2008-104; ss. 11, 12, ch. 2010-5; s. 2, ch. 2012-63. 

120.555Summary removal of published rules no longer in force and effect.—When, as part of the 

continuous revision system authorized ins. 120.55(1)(a)1. or as otherwise provided by Law, the Department of 

State is in doubt whether a ruLe published in the official version of the Florida Administrative Code is still in 

full force and effect, the procedure in this section shall be employed. 

(1 )The Department of State shalL submit to the head of the agency with authority to repeal or amend the 

rule, if any, or if no such agency can be identified, to the Governor, a written request for a statement as to 

whether the rule is stiLL in full force and effect. A copy of the request shall be promptLy delivered to the 

committee and to the Attorney General. The Department of State shalL pubLish a notice of the request 

together with a copy of the request in the FLorida Administrative Weekly next avaiLabLe after delivery of the 

request to the head of the agency or the Governor. 

(2)No later than 90 days after the date the notice required in subsection (1) is published, the agency or 

the Governor, notified pursuant to subsection (1), shall file a written response with the Department of State 

stating whether the rule is in fulL force and effect and under the jurisdiction of an agency with fulL authority 

to amend or repeal the ruLe. Failure to respond timely under this subsection constitutes an acknowledgment 

by the agency or the Governor that the ruLe is no longer in effect and is subject to summary repeaL under this 

section. 

(3)The Department of State shalL pubLish a notice of the agency's or Governor's timely response or the 

acknowledgment determined under subsection (2) in the Florida Administrative WeekLy next avaiLabLe after 

receipt of the response or the expiration of the response period, whichever occurs first. 

(4)If the response states that the ruLe is no longer in effect, or if no response is filed timeLy with the 

Department of State, the notice required in subsection (3) shall also give notice of the foLLowing: 

(a)Based on the agency's or Governor's written response or the acknowledgment determined under 

subsection (2), the ruLe wilL be repeaLed summarily pursuant to this section and removed from the Florida 

Administrative Code. 

(b)Any objection to the summary repeal under this section must be filed as a petition chaLlenging a 

proposed ruLe under s. 120.56 and must be fiLed no Later than 21 days after the date the notice is published in 

the Florida Administrative Weekly. 

(c)For purposes only of challenging a summary repeal under this section, the agency with current 

authority to repeaL the rule under s. 120.54 shalL be named as the respondent in the petition and shalL be the 

proper party in interest. In such circumstances, the Department of State shalL not be named as a party in a 

petition filed under paragraph (b) and this paragraph. 



(d)lf no agency currently has authority to repeaL the rule under s. 120.54, the Department of State shall 

be named as the respondent in a petition fiLed under paragraph (b) and this paragraph. The Attorney General 

shall represent the Department of State in alL proceedings under this paragraph. 

(5)Upon the expiration of the 21-day period to file an objection to a notice of summary repeal published 

pursuant to subsection (4), if no timely objection is filed, or, if a timely objection is fiLed, on the date a 

decision finding the rule is no Longer in effect becomes final, the Department of State shalL update the Florida 

Administrative Code to remove the rule and shaLl provide historical notes identifying the manner in which the 

rule ceased to have effect, incLuding the summary repeal pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 2012-31. 

120.5oChallenges to rules.— 

(1 )GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR CHALLENGING THE VALIDITY OF A RULE OR A PROPOSED RULE.— 

(a)Any person substantially affected by a ruLe or a proposed rule may seek an administrative 

determination of the invaLidity of the ruLe on the ground that the ruLe is an invaLid exercise of delegated 

legislative authority. 

(b)The petition seeking an administrative determination must state with particuLarity the provisions 

alleged to be invalid with sufficient expLanation of the facts or grounds for the aLleged invalidity and facts 

sufficient to show that the person chaLLenging a ruLe is substantialLy affected by it, or that the person 

challenging a proposed rule wouLd be substantiaLLy affected by it. 

(c)The petition shaLL be fiLed by electronic means with the division which shalL, immediateLy upon filing, 

forward by electronic means copies to the agency whose rule is challenged, the Department of State, and the 

committee. Within 10 days after receiving the petition, the division director shaLL, if the petition complies 

with the requirements of paragraph (b), assign an administrative law judge who shaLL conduct a hearing within 

30 days thereafter, unLess the petition is withdrawn or a continuance is granted by agreement of the parties 

or for good cause shown. Evidence of good cause includes, but is not Limited to, written notice of an agency's 

decision to modify or withdraw the proposed ruLe or a written notice from the chair of the committee stating 

that the committee wilL consider an objection to the rule at its next scheduLed meeting. The faiLure of an 

agency to follow the applicable ruLemaking procedures or requirements set forth in this chapter shaLl be 

presumed to be material; however, the agency may rebut this presumption by showing that the substantiaL 

interests of the petitioner and the fairness of the proceedings have not been impaired. 

(d)Within 30 days after the hearing, the administrative law judge shalL render a decision and state the 

reasons therefor in writing. The division shall forthwith transmit by eLectronic means copies of the 

administrative law judge's decision to the agency, the Department of State, and the committee. 

(e)Hearings held under this section shaLl be de novo in nature. The standard of proof shaLL be the 

preponderance of the evidence. Hearings shalL be conducted in the same manner as provided by ss. 120.569 



and 120.57, except that the administrative law judge's order shall be final agency action. The petitioner and 

the agency whose rule is challenged shall be adverse parties. Other substantially affected persons may join 

the proceedings as intervenors on appropriate terms which shall not unduly delay the proceedings. Failure to 

proceed under this section shall not constitute failure to exhaust administrative remedies. 

(2)CHALLENGING PROPOSED RULES; SPECIAL PROVISIONS.— 

(a)A substantially affected person may seek an administrative determination of the invalidity of a 

proposed rule by filing a petition seeking such a determination with the division within 21 days after the date 

of publication of the notice required by s. 120.54(3)(a); within 10 days after the final public hearing is held on 

the proposed rule as provided by s. 120.54(3)(e)2.; within 20 days after the statement of estimated regulatory 

costs or revised statement of estimated regulatory costs, if applicable, has been prepared and made available 

as provided in s. 120.541 (1 )(d); or within 20 days after the date of publication of the notice required by s. 

120.54(3)(d). The petition must state with particularity the objections to the proposed rule and the reasons 

that the proposed rule is an invalid exercise of delegated legislative authority. The petitioner has the burden 

of going forward. The agency then has the burden to prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the 

proposed rule is not an invalid exercise of delegated legislative authority as to the objections raised. A person 

who is substantially affected by a change in the proposed rule may seek a determination of the validity of 

such change. A person who is not substantially affected by the proposed rule as initially noticed, but who is 

substantially affected by the rule as a result of a change, may challenge any provision of the rule and is not 

limited to challenging the change to the proposed rule. 

(b)The administrative law judge may declare the proposed rule wholly or partly invalid. Unless the 

decision of the administrative law judge is reversed on appeal, the proposed rule or provision of a proposed 

rule declared invalid shall not be adopted. After a petition for administrative determination has been filed, 

the agency may proceed with all other steps in the rulemaking process, including the holding of a factfinding 

hearing. In the event part of a proposed rule is declared invalid, the adopting agency may, in its sole 

discretion, withdraw the proposed rule in its entirety. The agency whose proposed rule has been declared 

invalid in whole or part shall give notice of the decision in the first available issue of the Florida 

Administrative Weekly. 

(c)When any substantially affected person seeks determination of the invalidity of a proposed rule 

pursuant to this section, the proposed rule is not presumed to be valid or invalid. 

(3)CHALLENGING EXISTING RULES; SPECIAL PROVISIONS.— 

(a)A substantially affected person may seek an administrative determination of the invalidity of an 

existing rule at any time during the existence of the rule. The petitioner has a burden of proving by a 

preponderance of the evidence that the existing rule is an invalid exercise of delegated legislative authority 

as to the objections raised. 



(b)The administrative law judge may declare all or part of a rule invalid. The rule or part thereof 

declared invalid shall become void when the time for filing an appeal expires. The agency whose rule has been 

declared invalid in whole or part shall give notice of the decision in the Florida Administrative Weekly in the 

first available issue after the rule has become void. 

(4)CHALLENGING AGENCY STATEMENTS DEFINED AS RULES; SPECIAL PROVISIONS.— 

(a)Any person substantially affected by an agency statement may seek an administrative determination 

that the statement violates s. 120.54(1)(a). The petition shall include the text of the statement or a 

description of the statement and shall state with particularity facts sufficient to show that the statement 

constitutes a rule under s. 120.52 and that the agency has not adopted the statement by the rulemaking 

procedure provided by s. 120.54. 

(b)The administrative law judge may extend the hearing date beyond 30 days after assignment of the 

case for good cause. Upon notification to the administrative law judge provided before the final hearing that 

the agency has published a notice of rulemaking under s. 120.54(3), such notice shall automatically operate as 

a stay of proceedings pending adoption of the statement as a rule. The administrative law judge may vacate 

the stay for good cause shown. A stay of proceedings pending rulemaking shall remain in effect so long as the 

agency is proceeding expeditiously and in good faith to adopt the statement as a rule. If a hearing is held and 

the petitioner proves the allegations of the petition, the agency shall have the burden of proving that 

rulemaking is not feasible or not practicable under s. 120.54(1)(a). 

(c)The administrative law judge may determine whether all or part of a statement violates s. 

120.54(1 )(a). The decision of the administrative law judge shall constitute a final order. The division shall 

transmit a copy of the final order to the Department of State and the committee. The Department of State 

shall publish notice of the final order in the first available issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. 

(d)If an administrative law judge enters a final order that all or part of an agency statement violates s. 

120.54(1)(a), the agency must immediately discontinue all reliance upon the statement or any substantially 

similar statement as a basis for agency action. 

(e)If proposed rules addressing the challenged statement are determined to be an invalid exercise of 

delegated legislative authority as defined in s. 120.52(8)(b)-(f), the agency must immediately discontinue 

reliance on the statement and any substantially similar statement until rules addressing the subject are 

properly adopted, and the administrative law judge shall enter a final order to that effect. 

(f)All proceedings to determine a violation of s. 120.54(1)(a) shall be brought pursuant to this subsection. 

A proceeding pursuant to this subsection may be consolidated with a proceeding under subsection (3) or under 

any other section of this chapter. This paragraph does not prevent a party whose substantial interests have 

been determined by an agency action from bringing a proceeding pursuant to s. 120.57(1)(e). 

(5)CHALLENGING EMERGENCY RULES; SPECIAL PROVISIONS.—Challenges to the validity of an emergency 



rule shall be subject to the foLLowing time scheduLes in lieu of those estabLished by paragraphs (1 )(c) and (d). 

Within 7 days after receiving the petition, the division director shall, if the petition complies with paragraph 

(1 )(b), assign an administrative Law judge, who shall conduct a hearing within 14 days, unLess the petition is 

withdrawn. The administrative Law judge shalL render a decision within 14 days after the hearing. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 5, ch. 75-191; s. 6, ch. 76-1 31; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 4, ch. 78-425; s. 759, ch. 95-147; s. 16, ch. 96- 

159; s. 6, ch. 97-176; s. 5, ch. 99-379; s. 3, ch. 2003-94; s. 5, ch. 2006-82; ss. 10, 11, ch. 2008-104; ss. 3, 5, ch. 2010-279; HJR 9- 

A, 2010 SpeciaL Session A; s. 10, ch. 2011-208; s. 3, ch. 2011-225. 

120. 565Declaratory statement by agencies.— 

(1 )Any substantialLy affected person may seek a declaratory statement regarding an agency's opinion as 

to the applicabiLity of a statutory provision, or of any rule or order of the agency, as it appLies to the 

petitioner's particular set of circumstances. 

(2)The petition seeking a decLaratory statement shall state with particuLarity the petitioner's set of 

circumstances and shall specify the statutory provision, rule, or order that the petitioner believes may apply 

to the set of circumstances. 

(3)The agency shalL give notice of the fiLing of each petition in the next available issue of the Florida 

Administrative Weekly and transmit copies of each petition to the committee. The agency shall issue a 

declaratory statement or deny the petition within 90 days after the fiLing of the petition. The decLaratory 

statement or deniaL of the petition shaLL be noticed in the next availabLe issue of the FLorida Administrative 

Weekly. Agency disposition of petitions shalL be final agency action. 

History.—s. 6, ch. 75-191; s. 7, ch. 76-131; s. 5, ch. 78-425; s. 5, ch. 79-299; s. 760, ch. 95-147; s. 17, ch. 96-159. 

120. 5ó9Decisions which affect substantial interests.— 

(1 )The provisions of this section appLy in all proceedings in which the substantial interests of a party are 

determined by an agency, unless the parties are proceeding under s. 120.573 or s. 120.574. Unless waived by 

all parties, s. 120.57(1) applies whenever the proceeding involves a disputed issue of materiaL fact. Unless 

otherwise agreed, s. 120.57(2) applies in aLL other cases. If a disputed issue of materiaL fact arises during a 

proceeding under s. 120.57(2), then, unLess waived by all parties, the proceeding under s. 120.57(2) shall be 

terminated and a proceeding under s. 120.57(1) shall be conducted. Parties shall be notified of any order, 

including a finaL order. UnLess waived, a copy of the order shall be delivered or maiLed to each party or the 

party's attorney of record at the address of record. Each notice shaLl inform the recipient of any 

administrative hearing or judiciaL review that is available under this section, s. 120.57, or s. 120.68; shall 

indicate the procedure which must be followed to obtain the hearing or judicial review; and shaLl state the 

time limits which apply. 

(2)(a)Except for any proceeding conducted as prescribed in s. 120.56, a petition or request for a hearing 



under this section shall be fiLed with the agency. If the agency requests an administrative law judge from the 

division, it shall so notify the division by electronic means through the division's website within 15 days after 

receipt of the petition or request. A request for a hearing shall be granted or denied within 1 5 days after 

receipt. On the request of any agency, the division shall assign an administrative law judge with due regard to 

the expertise required for the particular matter. The referring agency shaLL take no further action with 

respect to a proceeding under s. 120.57(1), except as a party litigant, as Long as the division has jurisdiction 

over the proceeding under s. 120.57(1). Any party may request the disqualification of the administrative law 

judge by filing an affidavit with the division prior to the taking of evidence at a hearing, stating the grounds 

with particularity. 

(b)All parties shall be afforded an opportunity for a hearing after reasonabLe notice of not Less than 14 

days; however, the 14-day notice requirement may be waived with the consent of aLL parties. The notice shall 

include: 

1 .A statement of the time, pLace, and nature of the hearing. 

2.A statement of the legal authority and jurisdiction under which the hearing is to be heLd. 

(c)Unless otherwise provided by law, a petition or request for hearing shaLL include those items required 

by the uniform rules adopted pursuant to s. 120.54(5)(b). Upon the receipt of a petition or request for 

hearing, the agency shaLL carefuLLy review the petition to determine if it contains all of the required 

information. A petition shall be dismissed if it is not in substantial compLiance with these requirements or it 

has been untimeLy fiLed. DismissaL of a petition shall, at least once, be without prejudice to petitioner's filing 

a timely amended petition curing the defect, unLess it conclusively appears from the face of the petition that 

the defect cannot be cured. The agency shaLl promptly give written notice to aLl parties of the action taken on 

the petition, shalL state with particularity its reasons if the petition is not granted, and shall state the 

deadline for filing an amended petition if applicable. This paragraph does not eLiminate the avaiLabiLity of 

equitable tolling as a defense to the untimeLy filing of a petition. 

(d)The agency may refer a petition to the division for the assignment of an administrative Law judge only 

if the petition is in substantiaL compLiance with the requirements of paragraph (c). 

(e)ALL pleadings, motions, or other papers filed in the proceeding must be signed by the party, the party's 

attorney, or the party's quaLified representative. The signature constitutes a certificate that the person has 

read the pleading, motion, or other paper and that, based upon reasonabLe inquiry, it is not interposed for any 

improper purposes, such as to harass or to cause unnecessary delay, or for frivolous purpose or needless 

increase in the cost of Litigation. If a pleading, motion, or other paper is signed in vioLation of these 

requirements, the presiding officer shall impose upon the person who signed it, the represented party, or 

both, an appropriate sanction, which may include an order to pay the other party or parties the amount of 

reasonable expenses incurred because of the filing of the pleading, motion, or other paper, including a 



reasonable attorney's fee. 

(f)The presiding officer has the power to swear witnesses and take their testimony under oath, to issue 

subpoenas, and to effect discovery on the written request of any party by any means avaiLabLe to the courts 

and in the manner provided in the Florida RuLes of Civil Procedure, including the imposition of sanctions, 

except contempt. However, no presiding officer has the authority to issue any subpoena or order directing 

discovery to any member or employee of the LegisLature when the subpoena or order commands the 

production of documents or materials or compels testimony relating to the LegisLative duties of the member or 

employee. Any subpoena or order directing discovery directed to a member or an empLoyee of the LegisLature 

shall show on its face that the testimony sought does not relate to Legislative duties. 

(g)Irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious evidence shall be excLuded, but all other evidence of a 

type commonly relied upon by reasonably prudent persons in the conduct of their affairs shaLL be admissible, 

whether or not such evidence would be admissible in a trial in the courts of FLorida. Any part of the evidence 

may be received in written form, and aLl testimony of parties and witnesses shall be made under oath. 

(h)Documentary evidence may be received in the form of a copy or excerpt. Upon request, parties shalL 

be given an opportunity to compare the copy with the original, if available. 

(i)When official recognition is requested, the parties shall be notified and given an opportunity to 

examine and contest the material. 

(j)A party shall be permitted to conduct cross-examination when testimony is taken or documents are 

made a part of the record. 

(k)1 .Any person subject to a subpoena may, before compliance and on timely petition, request the 

presiding officer having jurisdiction of the dispute to invalidate the subpoena on the ground that it was not 

lawfully issued, is unreasonably broad in scope, or requires the production of irreLevant materiaL. 

2.A party may seek enforcement of a subpoena, order directing discovery, or order imposing sanctions 

issued under the authority of this chapter by filing a petition for enforcement in the circuit court of the 

judicial circuit in which the person failing to comply with the subpoena or order resides. A faiLure to comply 

with an order of the court shall resuLt in a finding of contempt of court. However, no person shaLl be in 

contempt while a subpoena is being challenged under subparagraph 1. The court may award to the prevaiLing 

party all or part of the costs and attorney's fees incurred in obtaining the court order whenever the court 

determines that such an award shouLd be granted under the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure. 

3.Any public empLoyee subpoenaed to appear at an agency proceeding shalL be entitled to per diem and 

travel expenses at the same rate as that provided for state employees under s. 112.061 if travel away from 

such public employee's headquarters is required. ALL other witnesses appearing pursuant to a subpoena shall 

be paid such fees and miLeage for their attendance as is provided in civil actions in circuit courts of this state. 

In the case of a pubLic empLoyee, such expenses shall be processed and paid in the manner provided for 



agency employee travel expense reimbursement, and in the case of a witness who is not a pubLic empLoyee, 

payment of such fees and expenses shaLl accompany the subpoena. 

(l)Unless the time period is waived or extended with the consent of alL parties, the finaL order in a 

proceeding which affects substantial interests must be in writing and include findings of fact, if any, and 

conclusions of law separately stated, and it must be rendered within 90 days: 

1 .After the hearing is concluded, if conducted by the agency; 

2.After a recommended order is submitted to the agency and mailed to aLL parties, if the hearing is 

conducted by an administrative law judge; or 

3.After the agency has received the written and oral material it has authorized to be submitted, if there 

has been no hearing. 

(m)Findings of fact, if set forth in a manner which is no more than mere tracking of the statutory 

language, must be accompanied by a concise and explicit statement of the underlying facts of record which 

support the findings. 

(n)If an agency head finds that an immediate danger to the public heaLth, safety, or weLfare requires an 

immediate final order, it shaLL recite with particularity the facts underLying such finding in the final order, 

which shall be appealabLe or enjoinable from the date rendered. 

(o)On the request of any party, the administrative Law judge shall enter an initial scheduLing order to 

facilitate the just, speedy, and inexpensive determination of the proceeding. The initial scheduling order shall 

establish a discovery period, incLuding a deadLine by which all discovery shall be compLeted, and the date by 

which the parties shall identify expert witnesses and their opinions. The initial scheduling order aLso may 

require the parties to meet and file a joint report by a date certain. 

(p)For any proceeding arising under chapter 373, chapter 378, or chapter 403, if a nonappLicant petitions 

as a third party to challenge an agency's issuance of a license, permit, or conceptuaL approvaL, the order of 

presentation in the proceeding is for the permit applicant to present a prima facie case demonstrating 

entitlement to the license, permit, or conceptuaL approvaL, folLowed by the agency. This demonstration may 

be made by entering into evidence the appLication and relevant material submitted to the agency in support 

of the application, and the agency's staff report or notice of intent to approve the permit, License, or 

conceptual approval. Subsequent to the presentation of the applicant's prima facie case and any direct 

evidence submitted by the agency, the petitioner initiating the action challenging the issuance of the license, 

permit, or conceptual approvaL has the burden of ultimate persuasion and has the burden of going forward to 

prove the case in opposition to the license, permit, or conceptual approval through the presentation of 

competent and substantiaL evidence. The permit appLicant and agency may on rebuttaL present any evidence 

relevant to demonstrating that the application meets the conditions for issuance. Notwithstanding subsection 

(1), this paragraph appLies to proceedings under s. 120.574. 





so recently enacted, and that the agency has initiated rulemaking and is proceeding expeditiously and in good 

faith to adopt the required ruLes, then the agency's action may be based upon those unadopted ruLes, subject 

to de novo review by the administrative Law judge. The agency action shaLl not be presumed vaLid or invalid. 

The agency must demonstrate that the unadopted rule: 

a.Is within the powers, functions, and duties delegated by the LegisLature or, if the agency is operating 

pursuant to authority derived from the State Constitution, is within that authority; 

b.Does not enlarge, modify, or contravene the specific provisions of law implemented; 

c.Is not vague, establishes adequate standards for agency decisions, or does not vest unbridled discretion 

in the agency; 

d.Is not arbitrary or capricious. A rule is arbitrary if it is not supported by Logic or the necessary facts; a 

rule is capricious if it is adopted without thought or reason or is irrational; 

e.Is not being appLied to the substantiaLly affected party without due notice; and 

f.Does not impose excessive regulatory costs on the regulated person, county, or city. 

3.The recommended and final orders in any proceeding shall be governed by the provisions of paragraphs 

(k) and (I), except that the administrative Law judge's determination regarding an unadopted ruLe under 

subparagraph 1. or subparagraph 2. shaLl not be rejected by the agency unLess the agency first determines 

from a review of the complete record, and states with particularity in the order, that such determination is 

clearly erroneous or does not comply with essentiaL requirements of law. In any proceeding for review under 

s. 120.68, if the court finds that the agency's rejection of the determination regarding the unadopted rule 

does not comport with the provisions of this subparagraph, the agency action shall be set aside and the court 

shall award to the prevailing party the reasonable costs and a reasonable attorney's fee for the initial 

proceeding and the proceeding for review. 

(f)The record in a case governed by this subsection shall consist only of: 

1 .All notices, pleadings, motions, and intermediate rulings. 

2.Evidence admitted. 

3.Those matters officially recognized. 

4.Proffers of proof and objections and rulings thereon. 

5.Proposed findings and exceptions. 

6.Any decision, opinion, order, or report by the presiding officer. 

7.All staff memoranda or data submitted to the presiding officer during the hearing or prior to its 

disposition, after notice of the submission to aLL parties, except communications by advisory staff as permitted 

under s. 120.66(1), if such communications are public records. 

8.All matters placed on the record after an ex parte communication. 

9.The official transcript. 



(g)The agency shaLL accurateLy and completeLy preserve all testimony in the proceeding, and, on the 

request of any party, it shall make a fuLL or partial transcript available at no more than actual cost. 

(h)Any party to a proceeding in which an administrative law judge of the Division of Administrative 

Hearings has final order authority may move for a summary final order when there is no genuine issue as to 

any material fact. A summary final order shaLl be rendered if the administrative law judge determines from 

the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with affidavits, if any, 

that no genuine issue as to any materiaL fact exists and that the moving party is entitled as a matter of Law to 

the entry of a final order. A summary finaL order shall consist of findings of fact, if any, conclusions of law, a 

disposition or penalty, if appLicabLe, and any other information required by law to be contained in the final 

order. 

(i)When, in any proceeding conducted pursuant to this subsection, a dispute of materiaL fact no longer 

exists, any party may move the administrative law judge to relinquish jurisdiction to the agency. An order 

relinquishing jurisdiction shall be rendered if the administrative law judge determines from the pleadings, 

depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with supporting and opposing 

affidavits, if any, that no genuine issue as to any material fact exists. If the administrative law judge enters 

an order relinquishing jurisdiction, the agency may promptly conduct a proceeding pursuant to subsection (2), 

if appropriate, but the parties may not raise any issues of disputed fact that could have been raised before 

the administrative Law judge. An order entered by an administrative law judge reLinquishing jurisdiction to the 

agency based upon a determination that no genuine dispute of material fact exists, need not contain findings 

of fact, conclusions of law, or a recommended disposition or penalty. 

(j)Findings of fact shall be based upon a preponderance of the evidence, except in penaL or Licensure 

disciplinary proceedings or except as otherwise provided by statute, and shaLL be based exclusiveLy on the 

evidence of record and on matters officially recognized. 

(k)The presiding officer shall complete and submit to the agency and aLl parties a recommended order 

consisting of findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommended disposition or penalty, if appLicable, and 

any other information required by law to be contained in the final order. All proceedings conducted under this 

subsection shall be de novo. The agency shall allow each party 15 days in which to submit written exceptions 

to the recommended order. The finaL order shall include an explicit ruLing on each exception, but an agency 

need not rule on an exception that does not clearLy identify the disputed portion of the recommended order 

by page number or paragraph, that does not identify the legal basis for the exception, or that does not include 

appropriate and specific citations to the record. 

(l)The agency may adopt the recommended order as the final order of the agency. The agency in its finaL 

order may reject or modify the concLusions of law over which it has substantive jurisdiction and interpretation 

of administrative rules over which it has substantive jurisdiction. When rejecting or modifying such conclusion 



of Law or interpretation of administrative rule, the agency must state with particuLarity its reasons for 

rejecting or modifying such conclusion of Law or interpretation of administrative rule and must make a finding 

that its substituted conclusion of Law or interpretation of administrative ruLe is as or more reasonable than 

that which was rejected or modified. Rejection or modification of conclusions of law may not form the basis 

for rejection or modification of findings of fact. The agency may not reject or modify the findings of fact 

unless the agency first determines from a review of the entire record, and states with particuLarity in the 

order, that the findings of fact were not based upon competent substantiaL evidence or that the proceedings 

on which the findings were based did not comply with essential requirements of Law. The agency may accept 

the recommended penalty in a recommended order, but may not reduce or increase it without a review of the 

compLete record and without stating with particuLarity its reasons therefor in the order, by citing to the 

record in justifying the action. 

(m)If a recommended order is submitted to an agency, the agency shaLl provide a copy of its finaL order 

and any exceptions to the division within 1 5 days after the order is filed with the agency cLerk. 

(n)Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, when statutes or rules impose conflicting time requirements 

for the scheduling of expedited hearings or issuance of recommended or final orders, the director of the 

division shall have the authority to set the proceedings for the orderly operation of this chapter. 

(2)ADDITIONAL PROCEDURES APPLICABLE TO HEARINGS NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL 

FACT.—In any case to which subsection (1) does not apply: 

(a)The agency shaLL: 

1 .Give reasonable notice to affected persons of the action of the agency, whether proposed or already 

taken, or of its decision to refuse action, together with a summary of the factuaL, LegaL, and poLicy grounds 

therefor. 

2.Give parties or their counsel the option, at a convenient time and pLace, to present to the agency or 

hearing officer written or oral evidence in opposition to the action of the agency or to its refusal to act, or a 

written statement chaLLenging the grounds upon which the agency has chosen to justify its action or inaction. 

3.If the objections of the parties are overruled, provide a written explanation within 7 days. 

(b)The record shall only consist of: 

1 .The notice and summary of grounds. 

2.Evidence received. 

3.All written statements submitted. 

4.Any decision overruling objections. 

5.All matters placed on the record after an ex parte communication. 

6.The official transcript. 

7.Any decision, opinion, order, or report by the presiding officer. 



(3)ADDITIONAL PROCEDURES APPLICABLE TO PROTESTS TO CONTRACT SOLICITATION OR AWARD.— 

Agencies subject to this chapter shaLL use the uniform rules of procedure, which provide procedures for the 

resolution of protests arising from the contract solicitation or award process. Such rules shall at least provide 

that: 

(a)The agency shaLL provide notice of a decision or intended decision concerning a soLicitation, contract 

award, or exceptional purchase by eLectronic posting. This notice shall contain the folLowing statement: 

"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in section 120.57(3), FLorida Statutes, or faiLure to post 

the bond or other security required by Law within the time allowed for filing a bond shaLL constitute a waiver 

of proceedings under chapter 120, FLorida Statutes." 

(b)Any person who is adversely affected by the agency decision or intended decision shalL fiLe with the 

agency a notice of protest in writing within 72 hours after the posting of the notice of decision or intended 

decision. With respect to a protest of the terms, conditions, and specifications contained in a soLicitation, 

including any provisions governing the methods for ranking bids, proposals, or replies, awarding contracts, 

reserving rights of further negotiation, or modifying or amending any contract, the notice of protest shall be 

fiLed in writing within 72 hours after the posting of the solicitation. The formal written protest shall be filed 

within 10 days after the date the notice of protest is filed. Failure to file a notice of protest or failure to file a 

formaL written protest shalL constitute a waiver of proceedings under this chapter. The formal written protest 

shall state with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is based. Saturdays, Sundays, and state 

holidays shall be excluded in the computation of the 72-hour time periods provided by this paragraph. 

(c)Upon receipt of the formal written protest that has been timely fiLed, the agency shalL stop the 

soLicitation or contract award process until the subject of the protest is resolved by final agency action, unless 

the agency head sets forth in writing particuLar facts and circumstances which require the continuance of the 

soLicitation or contract award process without deLay in order to avoid an immediate and serious danger to the 

public health, safety, or weLfare. 

(d)1 .The agency shaLl provide an opportunity to resolve the protest by mutuaL agreement between the 

parties within 7 days, excLuding Saturdays, Sundays, and state hoLidays, after receipt of a formal written 

protest. 

2.If the subject of a protest is not resolved by mutual agreement within 7 days, excluding Saturdays, 

Sundays, and state holidays, after receipt of the formaL written protest, and if there is no disputed issue of 

material fact, an informaL proceeding shalL be conducted pursuant to subsection (2) and appLicabLe agency 

rules before a person whose qualifications have been prescribed by rules of the agency. 

3.If the subject of a protest is not resolved by mutual agreement within 7 days, excluding Saturdays, 

Sundays, and state holidays, after receipt of the formaL written protest, and if there is a disputed issue of 

material fact, the agency shaLL refer the protest to the division by electronic means through the division's 



website for proceedings under subsection (1). 

(e)Upon receipt of a formal written protest referred pursuant to this subsection, the director of the 

division shall expedite the hearing and assign an administrative law judge who shall commence a hearing 

within 30 days after the receipt of the formal written protest by the division and enter a recommended order 

within 30 days after the hearing or within 30 days after receipt of the hearing transcript by the administrative 

law judge, whichever is later. Each party shall be allowed 10 days in which to submit written exceptions to 

the recommended order. A final order shall be entered by the agency within 30 days of the entry of a 

recommended order. The provisions of this paragraph may be waived upon stipulation by all parties. 

(f)In a protest to an invitation to bid or request for proposals procurement, no submissions made after 

the bid or proposal opening which amend or supplement the bid or proposal shall be considered. In a protest 

to an invitation to negotiate procurement, no submissions made after the agency announces its intent to 

award a contract, reject all replies, or withdraw the solicitation which amend or supplement the reply shall 

be considered. Unless otherwise provided by statute, the burden of proof shall rest with the party protesting 

the proposed agency action. In a competitive-procurement protest, other than a rejection of all bids, 

proposals, or replies, the administrative law judge shall conduct a de novo proceeding to determine whether 

the agency's proposed action is contrary to the agency's governing statutes, the agency's rules or policies, or 

the solicitation specifications. The standard of proof for such proceedings shall be whether the proposed 

agency action was clearly erroneous, contrary to competition, arbitrary, or capricious. In any bid-protest 

proceeding contesting an intended agency action to reject all bids, proposals, or replies, the standard of 

review by an administrative law judge shall be whether the agency's intended action is illegal, arbitrary, 

dishonest, or fraudulent. 

(g)For purposes of this subsection, the definitions in s. 287.012 apply. 

(4)INFORMAL DISPOSITION.—Unless precluded by law, informal disposition may be made of any proceeding 

by stipulation, agreed settlement, or consent order. 

(5)APPLICABILITY.—This section does not apply to agency investigations preliminary to agency action. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 7, ch. 75-191; s. 8, ch. 76-1 31; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 5, ch. 77-453; ss. 6, 11, ch. 78-95; s. 6, ch. 78- 

425; s. 8, ch. 79-7; s. 7, ch. 80-95; s. 4, ch. 80-289; s. 57, ch. 81 -259; s. 2, ch. 83-78; s. 9, ch. 83-216; s. 2, ch. 84-173; s. 4, ch. 

84-203; ss. 1, 2, ch. 86-108; s. 44, ch. 87-6; ss. 1, 2, ch. 87-54; s. 5, ch. 87-385; s. 1, ch. 90-283; s. 4, ch. 91-30; s. 1, ch. 91-191; 

s. 22, ch. 92-315; s. 7, ch. 94-218; s. 1420, ch. 95-147; s. 1, ch. 95-328; s. 19, ch. 96-159; s. 1, ch. 96-423; s. 8, ch. 97-176; s. 5, 

ch. 98-200; s. 3, ch. 98-279; s. 47, ch. 99-2; s. 6, ch. 99-379; s. 2, ch. 2002-207; s. 5, ch. 2003-94; s. 7, ch. 2006-82; s. 12, ch. 

2008-104; s. 12, ch. 2011-208. 

I 20.573Mediation of disputes.—Each announcement of an agency action that affects substantial 

interests shall advise whether mediation of the administrative dispute for the type of agency action 

announced is available and that choosing mediation does not affect the right to an administrative hearing. If 



the agency and alL parties to the administrative action agree to mediation, in writing, within 10 days after the 

time period stated in the announcement for election of an administrative remedy under ss. 120.569 and 

120.57, the time Limitations imposed by ss. 120.569 and 120.57 shalL be toLled to aLLow the agency and parties 

to mediate the administrative dispute. The mediation shall be concluded within 60 days of such agreement 

unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The mediation agreement shall include provisions for mediator 

selection, the aLLocation of costs and fees associated with mediation, and the mediating parties' 

understanding regarding the confidentiality of discussions and documents introduced during mediation. If 

mediation results in settLement of the administrative dispute, the agency shaLl enter a finaL order 

incorporating the agreement of the parties. If mediation terminates without settLement of the dispute, the 

agency shall notify the parties in writing that the administrative hearing processes under ss. 120.569 and 

120.57 are resumed. 

History.—s. 20, ch. 96-159; s. 9, ch. 97-176. 

I 20.574Summary hearing.— 

(1 )(a)Within 5 business days following the division's receipt of a petition or request for hearing, the 

division shall issue and serve on alL original parties an initial order that assigns the case to a specific 

administrative law judge and provides generaL information regarding practice and procedure before the 

division. The initiaL order shall also contain a statement advising the addressees that a summary hearing is 

available upon the agreement of aLl parties under subsection (2) and briefly describing the expedited time 

sequences, limited discovery, and finaL order provisions of the summary procedure. 

(b)Within 1 5 days after service of the initial order, any party may file with the division a motion for 

summary hearing in accordance with subsection (2). If all original parties agree, in writing, to the summary 

proceeding, the proceeding shaLL be conducted within 30 days of the agreement, in accordance with the 

provisions of subsection (2). 

(c)Intervenors in the proceeding shalL be governed by the decision of the originaL parties regarding 

whether the case wiLl proceed in accordance with the summary hearing process and shalL not have standing to 

challenge that decision. 

(d)If a motion for summary hearing is not fiLed within 15 days after service of the division's initiaL order, 

the matter shaLL proceed in accordance with ss. 120.569 and 120.57. 

(2)In any case to which this subsection is applicabLe, the following procedures apply: 

(a)Motions shall be Limited to the folLowing: 

1 .A motion in opposition to the petition. 

2.A motion requesting discovery beyond the informal exchange of documents and witness Lists described 

in paragraph (b). Upon a showing of necessity, additional discovery may be permitted in the discretion of the 

administrative law judge, but only if it can be completed not later than 5 days prior to the final hearing. 



3.A motion for continuance of the final hearing date. 

4.A motion requesting a prehearing conference, or the administrative Law judge may require a prehearing 

conference, for the purpose of identifying: the Legal and factuaL issues to be considered at the finaL hearing; 

the names and addresses of witnesses who may be caLled to testify at the finaL hearing; documentary evidence 

that will be offered at the finaL hearing; the range of penalties that may be imposed upon finaL hearing; and 

any other matter that the administrative Law judge determines would expedite resolution of the proceeding. 

The prehearing conference may be heLd by telephone conference call. 

5.During or after any preLiminary hearing or conference, any party or the administrative Law judge may 

suggest that the case is no longer appropriate for summary disposition. Following any argument requested by 

the parties, the administrative Law judge may enter an order referring the case back to the formal 

adjudicatory process described in s. 120.57(1), in which event the parties shaLL proceed accordingLy. 

(b)Not later than 5 days prior to the final hearing, the parties shaLl furnish to each other copies of 

documentary evidence and Lists of witnesses who may testify at the finaL hearing. 

(c)All parties shall have an opportunity to respond, to present evidence and argument on all issues 

invoLved, to conduct cross-examination and submit rebuttal evidence, and to be represented by counseL or 

other qualified representative. 

(d)The record in a case governed by this subsection shall consist only of: 

1 .All notices, pleadings, motions, and intermediate rulings. 

2.Evidence received. 

3.A statement of matters officiaLLy recognized. 

4.Proffers of proof and objections and rulings thereon. 

5.Matters placed on the record after an ex parte communication. 

6.The written decision of the administrative law judge presiding at the final hearing. 

7.The official transcript of the finaL hearing. 

(e)The agency shalL accurateLy and completeLy preserve all testimony in the proceeding and, upon 

request by any party, shaLl make a fulL or partial transcript available at no more than actuaL cost. 

(f)The decision of the administrative law judge shalL be rendered within 30 days after the concLusion of 

the final hearing or the fiLing of the transcript thereof, whichever is later. The administrative Law judge's 

decision, which shaLl be finaL agency action subject to judicial review under s. 120.68, shaLl include the 

following: 

1 .Findings of fact based exclusively on the evidence of record and matters officially recognized. 

2.Conclusions of law. 

3.Imposition of a fine or penaLty, if applicabLe. 

4.Any other information required by Law or ruLe to be contained in a finaL order. 



History.—s. 21, ch. 96-159; s. 10, ch. 97-176; s. 11, ch. 2000-158; s. 10, ch. 2000-336. 

I 20.595Attorney's fees.— 

(1)CHALLENGES TO AGENCY ACTION PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.57(1).— 

(a)The provisions of this subsection are suppLemental to, and do not abrogate, other provisions aLLowing 

the award of fees or costs in administrative proceedings. 

(b)The final order in a proceeding pursuant to s. 120.57(1) shaLl award reasonabLe costs and a reasonable 

attorney's fee to the prevaiLing party onLy where the nonprevailing adverse party has been determined by the 

administrative law judge to have participated in the proceeding for an improper purpose. 

(c)In proceedings pursuant to s. 120.57(1), and upon motion, the administrative Law judge shalL 

determine whether any party participated in the proceeding for an improper purpose as defined by this 

subsection. In making such determination, the administrative law judge shalL consider whether the 

nonprevailing adverse party has participated in two or more other such proceedings involving the same 

prevailing party and the same project as an adverse party and in which such two or more proceedings the 

nonprevailing adverse party did not estabLish either the factual or legaL merits of its position, and shall 

consider whether the factual or LegaL position asserted in the instant proceeding would have been cognizable 

in the previous proceedings. In such event, it shaLl be rebuttabLy presumed that the nonprevaiLing adverse 

party participated in the pending proceeding for an improper purpose. 

(d)In any proceeding in which the administrative law judge determines that a party participated in the 

proceeding for an improper purpose, the recommended order shall so designate and shall determine the 

award of costs and attorney's fees. 

(e)For the purpose of this subsection: 

1."Improper purpose" means participation in a proceeding pursuant to s. 120.57(1) primarily to harass or 

to cause unnecessary deLay or for frivolous purpose or to needlessly increase the cost of litigation, licensing, 

or securing the approval of an activity. 

2."Costs" has the same meaning as the costs alLowed in civil actions in this state as provided in chapter 

57. 

3."Nonprevailing adverse party" means a party that has faiLed to have substantially changed the outcome 

of the proposed or final agency action which is the subject of a proceeding. In the event that a proceeding 

results in any substantial modification or condition intended to resoLve the matters raised in a party's 

petition, it shaLl be determined that the party having raised the issue addressed is not a nonprevaiLing adverse 

party. The recommended order shaLl state whether the change is substantiaL for purposes of this subsection. In 

no event shall the term "nonprevailing party" or "prevailing party" be deemed to include any party that has 

intervened in a previously existing proceeding to support the position of an agency. 

(2)CHALLENGES TO PROPOSED AGENCY RULES PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.56(2).—If the appellate court or 



administrative law judge decLares a proposed ruLe or portion of a proposed rule invalid pursuant to s. 

120.56(2), a judgment or order shaLl be rendered against the agency for reasonable costs and reasonabLe 

attorney's fees, unLess the agency demonstrates that its actions were substantiaLly justified or special 

circumstances exist which would make the award unjust. An agency's actions are "substantiaLly justified" if 

there was a reasonabLe basis in Law and fact at the time the actions were taken by the agency. If the agency 

prevails in the proceedings, the appeLLate court or administrative Law judge shalL award reasonable costs and 

reasonable attorney's fees against a party if the appellate court or administrative law judge determines that a 

party participated in the proceedings for an improper purpose as defined by paragraph (1 )(e). No award of 

attorney's fees as provided by this subsection shaLl exceed $50,000. 

(3)CHALLENGES TO EXISTING AGENCY RULES PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.56(3) AND (5).—If the appeLlate 

court or administrative law judge declares a rule or portion of a rule invalid pursuant to s. 120.56(3) or (5), a 

judgment or order shall be rendered against the agency for reasonable costs and reasonable attorney's fees, 

unless the agency demonstrates that its actions were substantiaLly justified or speciaL circumstances exist 

which would make the award unjust. An agency's actions are "substantiaLLy justified" if there was a 

reasonable basis in law and fact at the time the actions were taken by the agency. If the agency prevails in 

the proceedings, the appelLate court or administrative law judge shall award reasonable costs and reasonable 

attorney's fees against a party if the appelLate court or administrative law judge determines that a party 

participated in the proceedings for an improper purpose as defined by paragraph (1 )(e). No award of 

attorney's fees as provided by this subsection shaLl exceed $50,000. 

(4)CHALLENGES TO AGENCY ACTION PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.56(4).— 

(a)If the appeLlate court or administrative Law judge determines that alL or part of an agency statement 

violates s. 120.54(1)(a), or that the agency must immediately discontinue reliance on the statement and any 

substantially similar statement pursuant to s. 120.56(4)(e), a judgment or order shaLL be entered against the 

agency for reasonable costs and reasonabLe attorney's fees, unless the agency demonstrates that the 

statement is required by the FederaL Government to implement or retain a deLegated or approved program or 

to meet a condition to receipt of federaL funds. 

(b)Upon notification to the administrative law judge provided before the final hearing that the agency 

has published a notice of rulemaking under s. 120.54(3)(a), such notice shaLL automatically operate as a stay 

of proceedings pending rulemaking. The administrative law judge may vacate the stay for good cause shown. 

A stay of proceedings under this paragraph remains in effect so long as the agency is proceeding expeditiously 

and in good faith to adopt the statement as a rule. The administrative Law judge shaLl award reasonabLe costs 

and reasonable attorney's fees accrued by the petitioner prior to the date the notice was pubLished, unless 

the agency proves to the administrative law judge that it did not know and shouLd not have known that the 

statement was an unadopted ruLe. Attorneys' fees and costs under this paragraph and paragraph (a) shaLl be 



awarded only upon a finding that the agency received notice that the statement may constitute an unadopted 

rule at least 30 days before a petition under s. 120.56(4) was filed and that the agency failed to publish the 

required notice of rulemaking pursuant to s. 120.54(3) that addresses the statement within that 30-day 

period. Notice to the agency may be satisfied by its receipt of a copy of the s. 120.56(4) petition, a notice or 

other paper containing substantially the same information, or a petition filed pursuant to s. 120.54(7). An 

award of attorney's fees as provided by this paragraph may not exceed $50,000. 

(c)Notwithstanding the provisions of chapter 284, an award shall be paid from the budget entity of the 

secretary, executive director, or equivalent administrative officer of the agency, and the agency shall not be 

entitled to payment of an award or reimbursement for payment of an award under any provision of law. 

(d)If the agency prevails in the proceedings, the appellate court or administrative law judge shall award 

reasonable costs and attorney's fees against a party if the appellate court or administrative law judge 

determines that the party participated in the proceedings for an improper purpose as defined in paragraph 

(1 )(e) or that the party or the party's attorney knew or should have known that a claim was not supported by 

the material facts necessary to establish the claim or would not be supported by the application of then- 

existing law to those material facts. 

(5)APPEALS.—When there is an appeal, the court in its discretion may award reasonable attorney's fees 

and reasonable costs to the prevailing party if the court finds that the appeal was frivolous, meritless, or an 

abuse of the appellate process, or that the agency action which precipitated the appeal was a gross abuse of 

the agency's discretion. Upon review of agency action that precipitates an appeal, if the court finds that the 

agency improperly rejected or modified findings of fact in a recommended order, the court shall award 

reasonable attorney's fees and reasonable costs to a prevailing appellant for the administrative proceeding 

and the appellate proceeding. 

(6)OTHER SECTIONS NOT AFFECTED.—Other provisions, including ss. 57.105 and 57.111, authorize the 

award of attorney's fees and costs in administrative proceedings. Nothing in this section shall affect the 

availability of attorney's fees and costs as provided in those sections. 

History.—s. 25, ch. 96-159; s. 11, ch. 97-176; s. 48, ch. 99-2; s. 6, ch. 2003-94; s. 13, ch. 2008-104. 

I 20.6oLicensing.— 

(1 )Upon receipt of a license application, an agency shall examine the application and, within 30 days 

after such receipt, notify the applicant of any apparent errors or omissions and request any additional 

information the agency is permitted by law to require. An agency may not deny a license for failure to correct 

an error or omission or to supply additional information unless the agency timely notified the applicant within 

this 30-day period. The agency may establish by rule the time period for submitting any additional information 

requested by the agency. For good cause shown, the agency shall grant a request for an extension of time for 

submitting the additional information. If the applicant believes the agency's request for additional 



information is not authorized by law or rule, the agency, at the appLicant's request, shall proceed to process 

the application. An appLication is compLete upon receipt of all requested information and correction of any 

error or omission for which the applicant was timeLy notified or when the time for such notification has 

expired. An application for a license must be approved or denied within 90 days after receipt of a completed 

application unless a shorter period of time for agency action is provided by Law. The 90-day time period is 

tolled by the initiation of a proceeding under ss. 120.569 and 120.57. Any appLication for a License which is 

not approved or denied within the 90-day or shorter time period, within 15 days after conclusion of a public 

hearing held on the application, or within 45 days after a recommended order is submitted to the agency and 

the parties, whichever action and timeframe is Latest and applicabLe, is considered approved unless the 

recommended order recommends that the agency deny the license. Subject to the satisfactory completion of 

an examination if required as a prerequisite to Licensure, any license that is considered approved shall be 

issued and may incLude such reasonabLe conditions as are authorized by Law. Any appLicant for Licensure 

seeking to claim licensure by defauLt under this subsection shall notify the agency clerk of the Licensing 

agency, in writing, of the intent to rely upon the default license provision of this subsection, and may not take 

any action based upon the defauLt License until after receipt of such notice by the agency clerk. 

(2)If an applicant seeks a License for an activity that is exempt from licensure, the agency shalL notify the 

applicant and return any tendered application fee within 30 days after receipt of the originaL appLication. 

(3)Each applicant shalL be given written notice, personally or by mail, that the agency intends to grant or 

deny, or has granted or denied, the appLication for license. The notice must state with particularity the 

grounds or basis for the issuance or deniaL of the license, except when issuance is a ministeriaL act. Unless 

waived, a copy of the notice shaLl be deLivered or mailed to each party's attorney of record and to each 

person who has made a written request for notice of agency action. Each notice must inform the recipient of 

the basis for the agency decision, inform the recipient of any administrative hearing pursuant to ss. 120.569 

and 120.57 or judiciaL review pursuant to s. 120.68 which may be avaiLable, indicate the procedure that must 

be folLowed, and state the appLicabLe time Limits. The issuing agency shaLL certify the date the notice was 

mailed or delivered, and the notice and the certification must be fiLed with the agency clerk. 

(4)When a licensee has made timely and sufficient application for the renewal of a License which does 

not automaticaLLy expire by statute, the existing License shall not expire until the application for renewal has 

been finally acted upon by the agency or, in case the application is denied or the terms of the License are 

limited, until the Last day for seeking review of the agency order or a later date fixed by order of the 

reviewing court. 

1 (5)No revocation, suspension, annulment, or withdrawaL of any license is lawful unless, prior to the entry 

of a final order, the agency has served, by personal service or certified mail, an administrative complaint 

which affords reasonable notice to the licensee of facts or conduct which warrant the intended action and 



unless the licensee has been given an adequate opportunity to request a proceeding pursuant to ss. 120.569 

and 120.57. When personaL service cannot be made and the certified maiL notice is returned undelivered, the 

agency shall cause a short, pLain notice to the Licensee to be pubLished once each week for 4 consecutive 

weeks in a newspaper published in the county of the licensee's last known address as it appears on the 

records of the agency. If no newspaper is pubLished in that county, the notice may be published in a 

newspaper of general circulation in that county. 

(6)If the agency finds that immediate serious danger to the public heaLth, safety, or welfare requires 

emergency suspension, restriction, or limitation of a license, the agency may take such action by any 

procedure that is fair under the circumstances if: 

(a)The procedure provides at least the same proceduraL protection as is given by other statutes, the State 

Constitution, or the United States Constitution; 

(b)The agency takes only that action necessary to protect the public interest under the emergency 

procedure; and 

(c)The agency states in writing at the time of, or prior to, its action the specific facts and reasons for 

finding an immediate danger to the public heaLth, safety, or welfare and its reasons for concluding that the 

procedure used is fair under the circumstances. The agency's findings of immediate danger, necessity, and 

procedural fairness are judicially reviewabLe. Summary suspension, restriction, or limitation may be ordered, 

but a suspension or revocation proceeding pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57 shall also be promptLy instituted 

and acted upon. 

(7)No agency shaLl include as a condition of approval of any license any provision that is based upon a 

statement, policy, or guideline of another agency unless the statement, policy, or guideline is within the 

jurisdiction of the other agency. The other agency shall identify for the licensing agency the specific legal 

authority for each such statement, poLicy, or guideline. The licensing agency must provide the licensee with 

an opportunity to chalLenge the condition as invaLid. If the licensing agency bases a condition of approval or 

denial of the license upon the statement, policy, or guideline of the other agency, any party to an 

administrative proceeding that arises from the approvaL with conditions or denial of the License may require 

the other agency to join as a party in determining the validity of the condition. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 10, ch. 76-131; s. 1, ch. 77-174; ss. 6, 9, ch. 77-453; s. 57, ch. 78-95; s. 8, ch. 78-425; s. 1, ch. 

79-142; s. 6, ch. 79-299; s. 2, ch. 81-180; s. 6, ch. 84-203; s. 2, ch. 84-265; s. 1, ch. 85-82; s. 14, ch. 90-51; s. 762, ch. 95-147; s. 

26, ch. 96-159; s. 326, ch. 96-410; s. 12, ch. 97-176; s. 7, ch. 2003-94; ss. 4, 5, ch. 2010-279; HJR 9-A, 2010 Special Session A; s. 

10, ch. 2012-212. 

Note.—Section 21, ch. 2012-212, provides that e]xcept as otherwise expressly provided in this act, this 

act shall take effect July 1, 2012, and shaLL apply to legal notices that must be pubLished on or after that 

date." 



I 20.62Agency investigations.— 

(1 )Every person who responds to a request or demand by any agency or representative thereof for written 

data or an oral statement shaLt be entitLed to a transcript or recording of his or her oral statement at no more 

than cost. 

(2)Any person compelled to appear, or who appears voluntarily, before any presiding officer or agency in 

an investigation or in any agency proceeding has the right, at his or her own expense, to be accompanied, 

represented, and advised by counseL or by other qualified representatives. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 763, ch. 95-147; s. 28, ch. 96-159. 

120.63Exemption from act.— 

(1 )Upon application of any agency, the Administration Commission may exempt any process or proceeding 

governed by this act from one or more requirements of this act: 

(a)When the agency head has certified that the requirement would conflict with any provision of federal 

law or rules with which the agency must compLy; 

(b)In order to permit persons in the state to receive tax benefits or federaL funds under any federal law; 

or 

(c)When the commission has found that conformity with the requirements of the part or parts of this act 

for which exemption is sought wouLd be so inconvenient or impractical as to defeat the purpose of the agency 

proceeding involved or the purpose of this act and would not be in the public interest in light of the nature of 

the intended action and the enabLing act or other laws affecting the agency. 

(2)The commission may not exempt an agency from any requirement of this act pursuant to this section 

until it estabLishes alternative procedures to achieve the agency's purpose which shaLL be consistent, insofar 

as possible, with the intent and purpose of the act. 

(a)Prior to the granting of any exemption authorized by this section, the commission shall hold a pubLic 

hearing after notice given as provided in s. 120.525. Upon the conclusion of the hearing, the commission, 

through the Executive Office of the Governor, shalL issue an order specifically granting or denying the 

exemption and specifying any processes or proceedings exempted and the extent of the exemption; transmit 

to the committee and to the Department of State a copy of the petition, a certified copy of the order granting 

or denying the petition, and a copy of any aLternative procedures prescribed; and give notice of the petition 

and the commission's response in the FLorida Administrative Weekly. 

(b)An exemption and any aLternative procedure prescribed shall terminate 90 days following adjournment 

sine die of the then-current or next regular legisLative session after issuance of the exemption order, or upon 

the effective date of any subsequent legisLation incorporating the exemption or any partial exemption related 

thereto, whichever is earlier. The exemption granted by the commission shaLl be renewabLe upon the same or 



similar facts not more than once. Such renewal shall terminate as would an originaL exemption. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 11, ch. 76-131; s. 1, ch. 77-53; s. 8, ch. 77-453; S. 87, ch. 79-190; s. 7, ch. 79-299; s. 70, ch. 79- 

400; s. 58, ch. 81 -259; s. 29, ch. 96-159. 

120. 65Administrative law judges.— 

(1 )The Division of Administrative Hearings within the Department of Management Services shaLL be 

headed by a director who shaLL be appointed by the Administration Commission and confirmed by the Senate. 

The director, who shall also serve as the chief administrative law judge, and any deputy chief administrative 

law judge must possess the same minimum qualifications as the administrative Law judges employed by the 

division. The Deputy Chief Judge of Compensation CLaims must possess the minimum qualifications estabLished 

in s. 440.45(2) and shaLl report to the director. The division shall be a separate budget entity, and the director 

shall be its agency head for all purposes. The Department of Management Services shalL provide administrative 

support and service to the division to the extent requested by the director. The division shall not be subject 

to control, supervision, or direction by the Department of Management Services in any manner, including, but 

not limited to, personneL, purchasing, transactions involving real or personal property, and budgetary matters. 

(2)The director has the right to appeal actions by the Executive Office of the Governor that affect 

amendments to the division's approved operating budget or any personnel actions pursuant to chapter 216 to 

the Administration Commission, which shaLl decide such issue by majority vote. The appropriations 

committees may advise the Administration Commission on the issue. If the President of the Senate and the 

Speaker of the House of Representatives object in writing to the effects of the appeaL, the appeal may be 

affirmed by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the commission members present. 

(3)Each state agency as defined in chapter 216 and each political subdivision shall make its faciLities 

available, at a time convenient to the provider, for use by the division in conducting proceedings pursuant to 

this chapter. 

(4)The division shall employ administrative Law judges to conduct hearings required by this chapter or 

other law. Any person empLoyed by the division as an administrative law judge must have been a member of 

The Florida Bar in good standing for the preceding 5 years. 

(5)If the division cannot furnish a division administrative law judge promptLy in response to an agency 

request, the director shaLl designate in writing a qualified full-time employee of an agency other than the 

requesting agency to conduct the hearing. The director shall have the discretion to designate such a hearing 

officer who is located in that part of the state where the parties and witnesses reside. 

(6)By rule, the division may establish: 

(a)Further qualifications for administrative law judges and shall estabLish procedures by which candidates 

will be considered for employment or contract. 

(b)The manner in which pubLic notice wilL be given of vacancies in the staff of administrative Law judges. 



(c)Procedures for the assignment of administrative law judges. 

(7)The division is authorized to provide administrative law judges on a contract basis to any 

governmental entity to conduct any hearing not covered by this section. 

(8)The division shall have the authority to adopt reasonable rules to carry out the provisions of this act. 

(9)Rules promulgated by the division may authorize any reasonable sanctions except contempt for 

violation of the rules of the division or failure to comply with a reasonable order issued by an administrative 

law judge, which is not under judiciaL review. 

(10)Not later than February 1 of each year, the division shall issue a written report to the Administrative 

Procedures Committee and the Administration Commission, including at Least the following information: 

(a)A summary of the extent and effect of agencies' utilization of administrative Law judges, court 

reporters, and other personneL in proceedings under this chapter. 

(b)Recommendations for change or improvement in the Administrative Procedure Act or any agency's 

practice or policy with respect thereto. 

(c)Recommendations as to those types of cases or disputes which should be conducted under the 

summary hearing process described in s. 120.574. 

(d)A report regarding each agency's compLiance with the filing requirement in s. 120.57(1 )(m). 

(11 )The division shall be reimbursed for administrative law judge services and traveL expenses by the 

following entities: water management districts, regional planning councils, school districts, community 

colleges, the Division of Florida Colleges, state universities, the Board of Governors of the State University 

System, the State Board of Education, the Florida SchooL for the Deaf and the Blind, and the Commission for 

Independent Education. These entities shalL contract with the division to establish a contract rate for services 

and provisions for reimbursement of administrative Law judge travel expenses and video teLeconferencing 

expenses attributable to hearings conducted on behalf of these entities. The contract rate must be based on a 

total-cost-recovery methodology. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 9, ch. 75-191; s. 14, ch. 76-131; s. 9, ch. 78-425; s. 46, ch. 79-190; s. 1, ch. 86-297; s. 46, ch. 87- 

6; s. 25, ch. 87-101; s. 54, ch. 88-1; s. 30, ch. 88-277; s. 51, ch. 92-279; s. 23, ch. 92-315; s. 55, ch. 92-326; s. 764, ch. 95-147; s. 

31, ch. 96-159; s. 13, ch. 97-176; s. 38, ch. 2000-371; s. 4, ch. 2001-91; s. 1, ch. 2004-247; s. 8, ch. 2006-82; s. 14, ch. 2007-217; 

s. 8, ch. 2009-228. 

120.651 Designation of two administrative law judges to preside over actions involving department or 

boards.—The Division of Administrative Hearings shalL designate at least two administrative Law judges who 

shall specifically preside over actions involving the Department of HeaLth or boards within the Department of 

Health. Each designated administrative Law judge must be a member of The Florida Bar in good standing and 

must have legal, managerial, or cLinical experience in issues related to heaLth care or have attained board 

certification in heaLth care law from The Florida Bar. 





120. 665Disqualification of agency personnel. 

(1)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 112.3143, any individual serving aLone or with others as an agency 

head may be disquaLified from serving in an agency proceeding for bias, prejudice, or interest when any party 

to the agency proceeding shows just cause by a suggestion filed within a reasonable period of time prior to 

the agency proceeding. If the disqualified individual was appointed, the appointing power may appoint a 

substitute to serve in the matter from which the individual is disqualified. If the individual is an elected 

official, the Governor may appoint a substitute to serve in the matter from which the individual is 

disqualified. However, if a quorum remains after the individual is disqualified, it shaLL not be necessary to 

appoint a substitute. 

(2)Any agency action taken by a duLy appointed substitute for a disquaLified individuaL shall be as 

conclusive and effective as if agency action had been taken by the agency as it was constituted prior to any 

substitution. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 12, ch. 78-425; s. 2, ch. 83-329; s. 767, ch. 95-147; s. 34, ch. 96-159. 

Note.—Former s. 120.71. 

I 20.68Judicial review.— 

(1 )A party who is adverseLy affected by final agency action is entitled to judiciaL review. A preliminary, 

procedural, or intermediate order of the agency or of an administrative law judge of the Division of 

Administrative Hearings is immediately reviewabLe if review of the final agency decision wouLd not provide an 

adequate remedy. 

(2)(a)Judicial review shall be sought in the appelLate district where the agency maintains its 

headquarters or where a party resides or as otherwise provided by law. All proceedings shalL be instituted by 

fiLing a notice of appeal or petition for review in accordance with the FLorida Rules of AppeLlate Procedure 

within 30 days after the rendition of the order being appealed. If the appeal is of an order rendered in a 

proceeding initiated under s. 120.56, the agency whose rule is being chaLLenged shaLL transmit a copy of the 

notice of appeal to the committee. 

(b)When proceedings under this chapter are consolidated for final hearing and the parties to the 

consolidated proceeding seek review of finaL or interlocutory orders in more than one district court of appeal, 

the courts of appeal are authorized to transfer and consoLidate the review proceedings. The court may 

transfer such appellate proceedings on its own motion, upon motion of a party to one of the appelLate 

proceedings, or by stipulation of the parties to the appellate proceedings. In determining whether to transfer 

a proceeding, the court may consider such factors as the interrelationship of the parties and the proceedings, 

the desirability of avoiding inconsistent resuLts in related matters, judicial economy, and the burden on the 

parties of reproducing the record for use in multiple appellate courts. 



(3)The filing of the petition does not itseLf stay enforcement of the agency decision, but if the agency 

decision has the effect of suspending or revoking a license, supersedeas shall be granted as a matter of right 

upon such conditions as are reasonable, unLess the court, upon petition of the agency, determines that a 

supersedeas would constitute a probable danger to the health, safety, or weLfare of the state. The agency 

also may grant a stay upon appropriate terms, but, whether or not the action has the effect of suspending or 

revoking a license, a petition to the agency for a stay is not a prerequisite to a petition to the court for 

supersedeas. In any event the court shall specify the conditions, if any, upon which the stay or supersedeas is 

granted. 

(4)Judicial review of any agency action shalL be confined to the record transmitted and any additions 

made thereto in accordance with paragraph (7)(a). 

(5)The record for judicial review shaLl be compiled in accordance with the FLorida Rules of AppeLlate 

Procedure. 

(6)(a)The reviewing court's decision may be mandatory, prohibitory, or declaratory in form, and it shall 

provide whatever relief is appropriate irrespective of the original form of the petition. The court may: 

1 .Order agency action required by Law; order agency exercise of discretion when required by Law; set 

aside agency action; remand the case for further agency proceedings; or decide the rights, privileges, 

obLigations, requirements, or procedures at issue between the parties; and 

2.Order such ancillary reLief as the court finds necessary to redress the effects of official action 

wrongfulLy taken or withheld. 

(b)If the court sets aside agency action or remands the case to the agency for further proceedings, it may 

make such interlocutory order as the court finds necessary to preserve the interests of any party and the 

public pending further proceedings or agency action. 

(7)The court shall remand a case to the agency for further proceedings consistent with the court's 

decision or set aside agency action, as appropriate, when it finds that: 

(a)There has been no hearing prior to agency action and the reviewing court finds that the vaLidity of the 

action depends upon disputed facts; 

(b)The agency's action depends on any finding of fact that is not supported by competent, substantiaL 

evidence in the record of a hearing conducted pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57; however, the court shall 

not substitute its judgment for that of the agency as to the weight of the evidence on any disputed finding of 

fact; 

(c)The fairness of the proceedings or the correctness of the action may have been impaired by a material 

error in procedure or a failure to follow prescribed procedure; 

(d)The agency has erroneously interpreted a provision of law and a correct interpretation compeLs a 

particular action; or 



(e)The agency's exercise of discretion was: 

1 .Outside the range of discretion delegated to the agency by law; 

2.Inconsistent with agency rule; 

3.Inconsistent with officially stated agency policy or a prior agency practice, if deviation therefrom is not 

explained by the agency; or 

4.Otherwise in violation of a constitutional or statutory provision; 

but the court shall not substitute its judgment for that of the agency on an issue of discretion. 

(8)Unless the court finds a ground for setting aside, modifying, remanding, or ordering agency action or 

ancillary relief under a specified provision of this section, it shall affirm the agency's action. 

(9)No petition challenging an agency rule as an invalid exercise of delegated legislative authority shall be 

instituted pursuant to this section, except to review an order entered pursuant to a proceeding under s. 

120.56 or an agency's findings of immediate danger, necessity, and procedural fairness prerequisite to the 

adoption of an emergency rule pursuant to s. 120.54(4), unless the sole issue presented by the petition is the 

constitutionality of a rule and there are no disputed issues of fact. 

(10)If an administrative law judge's final order depends on any fact found by the administrative law 

judge, the court shall not substitute its judgment for that of the administrative law judge as to the weight of 

the evidence on any disputed finding of fact. The court shall, however, set aside the final order of the 

administrative law judge or remand the case to the administrative law judge, if it finds that the final order 

depends on any finding of fact that is not supported by competent substantial evidence in the record of the 

proceeding. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 13, ch. 76-131; s. 38, ch. 77-104; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 11, ch. 78-425; s. 4, ch. 84-173; s. 7, ch. 87- 

385; s. 36, ch. 90-302; s. 6, ch. 91-30; s. 1, ch. 91-191; s. 10, ch. 92-166; s. 35, ch. 96-159; s. 15, ch. 97-176; s. 8, ch. 2003-94. 

120.69 Enforcement of agency action.— 

(1 )Except as otherwise provided by statute: 

(a)Any agency may seek enforcement of an action by filing a petition for enforcement, as provided in this 

section, in the circuit court where the subject matter of the enforcement is located. 

(b)A petition for enforcement of any agency action may be filed by any substantially interested person 

who is a resident of the state. However, no such action may be commenced: 

1 .Prior to 60 days after the petitioner has given notice of the violation of the agency action to the head 

of the agency concerned, the Attorney General, and any alleged violator of the agency action. 

2.If an agency has filed, and is diligently prosecuting, a petition for enforcement. 

(c)A petition for enforcement filed by a nongovernmental person shall be in the name of the State of 

Florida on the relation of the petitioner, and the doctrines of res judicata and collateral estoppel shall apply. 

(d)In an action brought under paragraph (b), the agency whose action is sought to be enforced, if not a 



party, may intervene as a matter of right. 

(2)A petition for enforcement may request declaratory relief; temporary or permanent equitable relief; 

any fine, forfeiture, penalty, or other remedy provided by statute; any combination of the foregoing; or, in 

the absence of any other specific statutory authority, a fine not to exceed $1 ,000. 

(3)After the court has rendered judgment on a petition for enforcement, no other petition shall be filed 

or adjudicated against the same agency action, on the basis of the same transaction or occurrence, unless 

expressly authorized on remand. The doctrines of res judicata and collateral estoppel shall apply, and the 

court shall make such orders as are necessary to avoid multiplicity of actions. 

(4)In all enforcement proceedings: 

(a)If enforcement depends on any facts other than those appearing in the record, the court may ascertain 

such facts under procedures set forth in s. 120.68(7)(a). 

(b)If one or more petitions for enforcement and a petition for review involving the same agency action 

are pending at the same time, the court considering the review petition may order all such actions transferred 

to and consolidated in one court. Each party shall be under an affirmative duty to notify the court when it 

becomes aware of multiple proceedings. 

(c)Should any party willfully fail to comply with an order of the court, the court shall punish that party in 

accordance with the law applicable to contempt committed by a person in the trial of any other action. 

(5)In any enforcement proceeding the respondent may assert as a defense the invalidity of any relevant 

statute, the inapplicability of the administrative determination to respondent, compliance by the respondent, 

the inappropriateness of the remedy sought by the agency, or any combination of the foregoing. In addition, if 

the petition for enforcement is filed during the time within which the respondent could petition for judicial 

review of the agency action, the respondent may assert the invalidity of the agency action. 

(6)Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, upon receipt of evidence that an alleged violation 

of an agency's action presents an imminent and substantial threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, the 

agency may bring suit for immediate temporary relief in an appropriate circuit court, and the granting of such 

temporary relief shall not have res judicata or collateral estoppel effect as to further relief sought under a 

petition for enforcement relating to the same violation. 

(7)In any final order on a petition for enforcement the court may award to the prevailing party all or part 

of the costs of litigation and reasonable attorney's fees and expert witness fees, whenever the court 

determines that such an award is appropriate. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 766, ch. 95-147; s. 36, ch. 96-159. 

120.695Notice of noncompliance.— 

(1 )It is the policy of the state that the purpose of regulation is to protect the public by attaining 

compliance with the policies established by the Legislature. Fines and other penalties may be provided in 



order to assure compliance; however, the coLLection of fines and the imposition of penaLties are intended to 

be secondary to the primary goal of attaining compliance with an agency's rules. It is the intent of the 

Legislature that an agency charged with enforcing rules shall issue a notice of noncompLiance as its first 

response to a minor violation of a rule in any instance in which it is reasonable to assume that the violator was 

unaware of the rule or unclear as to how to comply with it. 

(2)(a)Each agency shaLl issue a notice of noncompLiance as a first response to a minor violation of a rule. 

A "notice of noncompliance" is a notification by the agency charged with enforcing the ruLe issued to the 

person or business subject to the ruLe. A notice of noncompliance may not be accompanied with a fine or 

other disciplinary penalty. It must identify the specific rule that is being violated, provide information on how 

to comply with the rule, and specify a reasonabLe time for the violator to comply with the ruLe. A ruLe is 

agency action that regulates a business, occupation, or profession, or reguLates a person operating a business, 

occupation, or profession, and that, if not compLied with, may resuLt in a discipLinary penalty. 

(b)Each agency shaLl review alL of its rules and designate those for which a vioLation wouLd be a minor 

violation and for which a notice of noncompLiance must be the first enforcement action taken against a person 

or business subject to regulation. A vioLation of a rule is a minor violation if it does not resuLt in economic or 

physical harm to a person or adverseLy affect the public health, safety, or weLfare or create a significant 

threat of such harm. If an agency under the direction of a cabinet officer maiLs to each licensee a notice of 

the designated rules at the time of Licensure and at least annualLy thereafter, the provisions of paragraph (a) 

may be exercised at the discretion of the agency. Such notice shaLl include a subject-matter index of the ruLes 

and information on how the rules may be obtained. 

(c)The agency's review and designation must be completed by December 1, 1995; each agency under the 

direction of the Governor shall make a report to the Governor, and each agency under the joint direction of 

the Governor and Cabinet shall report to the Governor and Cabinet by January 1, 1996, on which of its rules 

have been designated as ruLes the violation of which would be a minor violation. 

(d)The Governor or the Governor and Cabinet, as appropriate pursuant to paragraph (c), may evaluate 

the review and designation effects of each agency and may apply a different designation than that appLied by 

the agency. 

(e)This section does not apply to the regulation of law enforcement personnel or teachers. 

(f)Designation pursuant to this section is not subject to challenge under this chapter. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 95-402. 

I 20.72Legislative intent; references to chapter 1 20 or portions thereof.—Unless expressly provided 

otherwise, a reference in any section of the Florida Statutes to chapter 120 or to any section or sections or 

portion of a section of chapter 120 incLudes, and shall be understood as including, aLl subsequent amendments 

to chapter 120 or to the referenced section or sections or portions of a section. 



History.—s. 3, ch. 74-310; s. 1, ch. 76-207; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 57, ch. 78-95; s. 13, ch. 78-425; s. 38, ch. 96-159. 

I 20.73Circuit court proceedings; declaratory judgments.—Nothing in this chapter shaLl be construed to 

repeal any provision of the Florida Statutes which grants the right to a proceeding in the circuit court in lieu 

of an administrative hearing or to divest the circuit courts of jurisdiction to render decLaratory judgments 

under the provisions of chapter 86. 

History.—s. 11, ch. 75-191; s. 14, ch. 78-425. 

I 20.74Agency review, revision, and report.— 

(1 )Each agency shalL review and revise its rules as often as necessary to ensure that its ruLes are correct 

and comply with statutory requirements. AdditionaLly, each agency shall perform a formal review of its rules 

every 2 years. In the review, each agency must: 

(a)Identify and correct deficiencies in its rules; 

(b)Clarify and simplify its ruLes; 

(c)Delete obsolete or unnecessary ruLes; 

(d)Delete rules that are redundant of statutes; 

(e)Seek to improve efficiency, reduce paperwork, or decrease costs to government and the private 

sector; 

(f)Contact agencies that have concurrent or overLapping jurisdiction to determine whether their rules can 

be coordinated to promote efficiency, reduce paperwork, or decrease costs to government and the private 

sector; and 

(g)Determine whether the ruLes shouLd be continued without change or should be amended or repealed to 

reduce the impact on smalL business whiLe meeting the stated objectives of the proposed rule. 

(2)Beginning October 1, 1997, and by October 1 of every other year thereafter, the head of each agency 

shall file a report with the President of the Senate, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the 

committee, with a copy to each appropriate standing committee of the LegisLature, which certifies that the 

agency has complied with the requirements of this section. The report must specify any changes made to its 

rules as a result of the review and, when appropriate, recommend statutory changes that will promote 

efficiency, reduce paperwork, or decrease costs to government and the private sector. The report must 

specifically address the economic impact of the rules on small business. The report must identify the types of 

cases or disputes in which the agency is invoLved which should be conducted under the summary hearing 

process described in s. 120.574. 

(3)Beginning in 2012, and no Later than July 1 of each year, each agency shalL file with the President of 

the Senate, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the committee a reguLatory pLan identifying and 

describing each rule the agency proposes to adopt for the 12-month period beginning on the July 1 reporting 



date and ending on the subsequent June 30, excLuding emergency rules. 

(4)For the year 2011, the certification required in subsection (2) may omit any information incLuded in 

the reports provided under s. 120.745. Reporting under subsections (1) and (2) shall be suspended for the year 

2013, but required reporting under those subsections shall resume in 2015 and biennialLy thereafter. 

History.—s. 46, ch. 96-399; s. 16, ch. 97-176; s. 9, ch. 2006-82; s. 15, ch. 2008-104; s. 8, ch. 2008-149; s. 4, ch. 2011-225. 

I 20.745Legislative review of agency rules in effect on or before November 16, 2010.— 

(1 )DEFINITIONS.—The following definitions appLy exclusively to this section: 

(a)"Agency" has the same meaning and application as provided in s. 120.52(1), but for the purposes of 

this section excludes each officer and governmental entity in the state with jurisdiction in one county or less 

than one county. 

(b)"Compliance economic review" means a good faith economic analysis that includes and presents the 

following information pertaining to a particuLar rule: 

1 .A justification for the rule summarizing the benefits of the rule; and 

2.A statement of estimated reguLatory costs as described in s. 120.541 (2); however: 

a.The applicable period for the economic anaLysis shall be 5 years beginning on July 1, 2011; 

b.For the analysis required in s. 120.541(2)(a)3., the estimated regulatory costs over the 5-year period 

shall be used instead of the likely increase in regulatory costs after implementation; and 

c.An explanation of the methodology used to conduct the analysis must be provided. A technical 

methodology need not be used to develop the statement of estimated regulatory costs, if the agency uses 

routine regulatory communications or its Internet website to reasonably survey regulated entities, poLitical 

subdivisions, and local governments and makes good faith estimates of reguLatory costs in conformity with 

recommendations from the Office of Fiscal Accountability and Regulatory Reform ("OFARR"), or from one or 

more legislative offices if requested by the agency and such request is approved by the President of the 

Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives. 

(c)"Data collection ruLes" means those rules requiring the submission of data to the agency from external 

sources, including, but not limited to, locaL governments, service providers, clients, Licensees, regulated 

entities, other constituents, and market participants. 

(d)"Revenue ruLes" means those ruLes fixing amounts or providing for the collection of money. 

(e)"Rule" has the same general meaning and application as provided in s. 120.52(16), but for purposes of 

this section may include only those rules for which publication in the Florida Administrative Code is required 

pursuant to s. 120.55(1). As used in this section, the term "rule" means each entire statement and all 

subparts published under a complete title, chapter, and decimal ruLe number in the FLorida Administrative 

Code in compliance with FLorida Administrative Code Rule 1 B-30.001. 

(2)ENHANCED BIENNIAL REVIEW.—By December 1, 2011, each agency shall compLete an enhanced biennial 



review of the agency's existing rules, which shall include, but is not Limited to: 

(a)Conduct of the review and submission of the report required by s. 120.74 and an explanation of how 

the agency has accompLished the requirements of s. 120.74(1). This paragraph extends the October 1 deadline 

provided in s. 120.74(2) for the year 2011. 

(b)Review of each rule to determine whether the rule has been reviewed by OFARR pursuant to the 

Governor's Executive Order 2011-01. 

(c)Review of each rule to determine whether the ruLe is a revenue ruLe, to identify the statute or 

statutes authorizing the coLLection of any revenue, to identify the fund or account into which revenue 

collections are deposited, and, for each revenue ruLe, to determine whether the rule authorizes, imposes, or 

implements: 

1 .Registration, license, or inspection fees. 

2.Transportation service tolls for road, bridge, rail, air, waterway, or port access. 

3.Fees for a specific service or purpose not included in subparagraph 1. or subparagraph 2. 

4.Fines, penalties, costs, or attorney fees. 

5.Any tax. 

6.Any other amounts colLected that are not covered under subparagraphs 1 .-5. 

(d)Review of each rule to determine whether the rule is a data collection ruLe, providing the folLowing 

information for each rule determined to be a data colLection rule: 

1 .The statute or statutes authorizing the coLlection of such data. 

2.The purposes for which the agency uses the data and any purpose for which the data is used by others. 

3.The policies supporting the reporting and retention of the data. 

4.Whether and to what extent the data is exempt from public inspection under chapter 119. 

(e)Identification of each entire rule the agency pLans to repeal and, if so, the estimated timetabLe for 

repeal. 

(f)Identification of each entire ruLe or subpart of a rule the agency pLans to amend to substantially 

reduce the economic impact and the estimated timetable for amendment. 

(g)Identification of each rule for which the agency will be required to prepare a compLiance economic 

review, to include each entire rule that: 

1.The agency does not pLan to repeal on or before December 31, 2012; 

2.Was effective on or before November 16, 2010; and 

3.Probably will have any of the economic impacts described in s. 120.541 (2)(a), for 5 years beginning on 

JuLy 1, 2011, excLuding in such estimation any part or subpart identified for amendment under paragraph (f). 

(h)Listing of all rules identified for compLiance economic review in paragraph (g), divided into two 

approximately equaL groups, identified as "Group 1" and "Group 2." Such division shalL be made at the 



agency's discretion. 

(i)Written certification of the agency head to the committee verifying the completion of the report for 

all rules of the agency, including each separate part or subsection. The duty to certify completion of the 

report is the responsibility solely of the agency head as defined in s. 120.52(3) and may not be delegated to 

any other person. If the defined agency head is a collegial body, the written certification must be prepared by 

the chair or equivalent presiding officer of that body. 

(3)PUBLICATION OF REPORT.—No later than December 1, 2011, each agency shall publish, in the manner 

provided in subsection (7), a report of the entire enhanced biennial review pursuant to subsection (2), 

including the results of the review; a complete list of all rules the agency has placed in Group 1 or Group 2; 

the name, physical address, fax number, and e-mail address for the person the agency has designated to 

receive all inquiries, public comments, and objections pertaining to the report; and the certification of the 

agency head pursuant to paragraph (2)(i). The report of results shall summarize certain information required 

in subsection (2) in a table consisting of the following columns: 

(a)Column 1: Agency name. 

(b)Column 2: F.A.C. rule number, with subcolumns including: 

1 .Column 2a: F.A.C. title and any subtitle or chapter designation; and 

2.Column 2b: F.A.C. number, excluding title and subtitle or chapter designation. 

(c)Column 3: OFARR reviewed rule under Executive Order 2011-01. Entries should be "Y" or "N." 

(d)Column 4: Revenue rule/fund or account with subcolumns including: 

1 .Column 4a: Licensure fees. 

2.Column 4b: Transportation tolls. 

3.Column 4c: Other fees. 

4.Column 4d: Fines. 

5.Column 4e: Tax. 

6.Column 4f: Other revenue. 

Entries should be "N" or the identification of the fund or account where receipts are deposited and provide 

notes indicating the statutory authority for revenue collection. 

(e)Column 5: Data collection rule. Entries should be "Y" or "N." If "Y," provide notes supplying the 

information required in paragraph (2)(d). 

(f)Column 6: Repeal. Entries should be "Y" or "N" for the entire rule. If "Y," provide notes estimating the 

timetable for repeal. 

(g)Column 7: Amend. Entries should be "Y" or "N," based on the response required in paragraph (2)(f), 

and provide notes identifying each specific subpart that will be amended and estimating the timetable for 

amendment. 



(h)Column 8: Effective on or before 11/16/2010. Entries should be "Y" or "N." 

(i)Column 9: Section 120.541 (2)(a) impacts. Entries should be "NA" if Column 8 is "N" or, if CoLumn 6 is 

"Y," "NP" for not probable, based on the response required in subparagraph (2)(g)3., or "1" or "2," reflecting 

the group number assigned by the division required in paragraph (2)(h). 

(4)PUBLIC COMMENT ON ENHANCED BIENNIAL REVIEW AND REPORT; OBJECTIONS.—PubLic input on reports 

required in subsection (3) may be provided by stating an objection to the information required in paragraphs 

(2)(b), (c), (d), and (g) and identifying the entire rule or any subpart to which the objection relates, and shall 

be submitted in writing or eLectronicaLLy to the person designated in the report. 

(a)An objection under this subsection to a report that an entire ruLe or any subpart probably wiLL not 

have, for 5 years beginning on July 1, 2011, any of the economic impacts described ins. 120.541(2)(a), must 

include allegations of fact upon which the objection is based, stating the precise information upon which a 

contrary evaluation of probable impact may be made. Allegations of fact related to other objections may be 

included. 

(b)Objections may be submitted by any interested person no later than June 1, 2012. 

(c)The agency shalL determine whether to sustain an objection based upon the information provided with 

the objection and whether any further review of information available to the agency is necessary to correct 

its report. 

(d)No later than 20 days after the date an objection is submitted, the agency shall pubLish its 

determination of the objection in the manner provided in subsection (7). 

(e)The agency's determination with respect to an objection is final but not a finaL agency action subject 

to further proceedings, hearing, or judicial review. 

(f)If the agency sustains an objection, it shaLl amend its report within 10 days after the determination. 

The amended report shaLl indicate that a change has been made, the date of the last change, and identify the 

amended portions. The agency shall publish notice of the amendment in the manner provided in subsection 

(7). 

(g)On or before July 1, 2012, the agency shaLL deLiver a written certification of the agency head or 

designee to the committee verifying the compLetion of determinations of all objections under this subsection 

and of any report amendments required under paragraph (f). The certification shall be published as an 

addendum to the report required in subsection (3). Notice of the certification shall be published in the 

manner provided in subsection (7). 

(5)COMPLIANCE ECONOMIC REVIEW OF RULES AND REQUIRED REPORT.—Each agency shall perform a 

compLiance economic review and report for aLL ruLes, including separate reviews of subparts, listed under 

Group 1 "Group 1 rules" or Group 2 "Group 2 rules" pursuant to subparagraph (2)(g)3. Group 1 rules shaLL be 

reviewed and reported on in 2012, and Group 2 rules shall be reviewed and reported on in 2013. 



(a)No later than May 1, each agency shalL: 

1 .Complete a compliance economic review for each entire rule or subpart in the appropriate group. 

2.File the written certification of the agency head with the committee verifying the completion of each 

compLiance economic review required for the respective year. The certification shall be dated and pubLished 

as an addendum to the report required in subsection (3). The duty to certify compLetion of the required 

compLiance economic reviews is the responsibiLity solely of the agency head as defined in s. 120.52(3) and 

may not be deLegated to any other person. If the defined agency head is a coLlegial body, the written 

certification must be prepared by the chair or equivalent presiding officer of that body. 

3.Publish a copy of the compliance economic review, directions on how and when interested parties may 

submit lower cost regulatory aLternatives to the agency, and the date the notice is pubLished in the manner 

provided in subsection (7). 

4.Publish notice of the pubLications required in subparagraphs 2. and 3. in the manner provided in 

subsection (7). 

5.Submit each compliance economic review to the ruLes ombudsman in the Executive Office of the 

Governor for the ombudsman's review. 

(b)Any agency rule, incLuding subparts, reviewed pursuant to Executive Order 2011-01 are exempt from 

the compliance economic review if the review found that the ruLe: 

1 .Does not unnecessariLy restrict entry into a profession or occupation; 

2.Does not adversely affect the avaiLabiLity of professional or occupational services to the public; 

3.Does not unreasonably affect job creation or job retention; 

4.Does not place unreasonable restrictions on individuals attempting to find empLoyment; 

5.Does not impose burdensome costs on businesses; or 

6.Is justifiable when the overaLL cost-effectiveness and economic impact of the regulation, including 

indirect costs to consumers, is considered. 

(c)No later than August 1, the ruLes ombudsman in the Executive Office of the Governor may submit 

lower cost regulatory alternatives to any ruLe to the agency that adopted the rule. No Later than June 1 5, 

other interested parties may submit lower cost reguLatory alternatives to any ruLe. 

(d)No later than December 1, each agency shaLl publish a final report of the agency's review under this 

subsection in the manner provided in subsection (7). For each rule the report shall include: 

1 .The text of the ruLe. 

2.The compliance economic review for the rule. 

3.All lower regulatory cost alternatives received by the agency. 

4.The agency's written expLanation for rejecting submitted lower regulatory cost aLternatives. 

5.The agency's justification to repeal or amend the rule or to retain the ruLe without amendment. 



6.The written certification of the agency head to the committee verifying the completion of the reviews 

and reporting required under this subsection for that year. The certification shalL be dated and pubLished as 

an addendum to the report required in subsection (3). The duty to certify completion of the report is the 

responsibility solely of the agency head as defined in s. 120.52(3) and may not be deLegated to any other 

person. If the defined agency head is a collegial body, the written certification must be prepared by the chair 

or equivalent presiding officer of that body. 

(e)Notice of publication of the finaL report and certification shall be published in the manner provided in 

subsection (7). 

(f)By December 1, each agency shaLL begin proceedings under s. 120.54(3) to amend or repeaL those rules 

so designated in the report under this subsection. Proceedings to repeal rules are exempt from the 

requirements for the preparation, consideration, or use of a statement of estimated reguLatory costs under s. 

120.54 and the provisions of s. 120.541. 

(6)LEGISLATIVE CONSIDERATION.—With respect to a ruLe identified for retention without amendment in 

the report required in subsection (5), the LegisLature may consider specific legislation nullifying the rule or 

altering the statutory authority for the ruLe. 

(7)MANNER OF PUBLICATION OF NOTICES, DETERMINATIONS, AND REPORTS.—Agencies shall publish 

notices, determinations, and reports required under this section exclusively in the foLlowing manner: 

(a)The agency shaLL pubLish each notice, determination, and complete report on its Internet website. If 

the agency does not have an Internet website, the information shall be published on the committee's Internet 

website using agency name]! in place of the address of the agency's Internet website. 

The following URL formats shall be used: 

1 .Reports required under subsection (3), incLuding any reports amended as a result of a determination 

under subsection (4): 

Address of agency's Internet website]!201 1_Rule_review! 

Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) titLe and subtitle (if applicable) designation for the ruLes incLuded]. 

(Example: http: !!www.dos.state.fl.us!201 1_Rule_review! iS). 

2.The lists of Group 1 rules and Group 2 rules, required under subsection (3): 

Address of agency's Internet website]!201 1_Rule_review! 

Economic_Review!Schedule. 

(Example: http: !!www.dos.state.fl.us!201 1_RuLe_review! 

Economic_Review!Schedule). 

3.Determinations under subsection (4): 

Address of agency's Internet website]!201 1_Rule_review! 

Objection_Determination! F.A.C. RuLe number]. 



(Example: http: //www.dos.state.fl.us/201 1_Rule_review! 

Objection_Determination /15-1 .001). 

4.Completed compliance economic reviews reported under subsection (5): 

Address of agency's Internet website]/201 1_Rule_review! 

Economic_Review! F.A.C. Rule number]. 

(Example: http: //www.dos.state.fl.us!201 1_Rule_review! 

Economic_Review/iS-i .001). 

5.Final reports under paragraph (5)(d), with the appropriate year: 

Address of agency's Internet website]/201 1_Rule_review! 

Economic_Review! YYYY_Final_Report]. 

(Example: http: //www.dos.state.fl.us!201 1_Rule_review! 

Economic_Review!201 2_Final_Report). 

(b)1 .Each notice shall be published using the following URL format: 

Address of agency's Internet website]/ 

2011_Rule_review! Notices. 

(Example: http: / /www.dos.state.fl. us!201 1_Rule_review! Notices). 

2.Once each week a copy of all notices published in the previous week on the Internet under this 

paragraph shall be delivered to the Department of State, for publication in the next available issue of the 

Florida Administrative Weekly, and a copy shall be delivered by electronic mail to the committee. 

3.Each notice shall identify the publication for which notice is being given and include: 

a.The name of the agency. 

b.The name, physical address, fax number, and e-mail address for the person designated to receive all 

inquiries, public comments, and objections pertaining to the publication identified in the notice. 

c.The particular Internet address through which the publication may be accessed. 

d.The date the notice and publication is first published on the agency's Internet website. 

(c)Publication pursuant to this section is deemed to be complete as of the date the notice, 

determination, or report is posted on the agency's Internet website. 

(8)FAILURE TO FILE CERTIFICATION OF COMPLETION.—If an agency fails to timely file any written 

certification required in paragraph (2)(i), paragraph (4)(g), subparagraph (5)(a)2., or subparagraph (5)(d)6., 

the entire rulemaking authority delegated to the agency by the Legislature under any statute or law shall be 

suspended automatically as of the due date of the required certification and shall remain suspended until the 

date that the agency files the required certification with the committee. 

(a)During the period of any suspension under this subsection, the agency has no authority to engage in 

rulemaking under s. 120.54. 



(b)A suspension under this subsection does not authorize an agency to promulgate any statement defined 

as a rule under s. 120.52(16). 

(c)A suspension under this subsection shaLt toLL the time requirements under s. 120.54 for any rulemaking 

proceeding the agency initiated before the date of suspension, which time requirements shalL resume on the 

date the agency files the written certification with the committee and pubLishes notice of the required 

certification in the manner provided in subsection (7). 

(d)Failure to timely file a written certification required under paragraph (2)(i) toLls the time for public 

response, which period shaLL not begin untiL the date the agency fiLes the written certification with the 

committee and publishes notice of the required certification in the manner provided in subsection (7). The 

period for public response shall be extended by the number of days equivalent to the period of suspension 

under this subsection. 

(e)Failure to timeLy fiLe a written certification required under subparagraph (5)(a)2. shaLl toLl the 

deadline for submission of lower cost regulatory aLternatives for any rule or subpart for which a compliance 

economic review has not been timeLy published. The period of tolling shall be the number of days after May 1 

until the date of the certification as published. 

(9)EXEMPTION FROM ENHANCED BIENNIAL REVIEW AND COMPLIANCE ECONOMIC REVIEW.— 

(a)An agency is exempt from subsections (1 )-(8) if it has cooperated or cooperates with OFARR in a 

review of the agency's rules in a manner consistent with Executive Order 2011 -01, or any alternative review 

directed by OFARR; if the agency or OFARR identifies each data coLlection ruLe and each revenue rule; and if 

the information developed thereby becomes pubLicly available on the Internet by December 1, 2011. Each 

such agency is exempt from the biennial review required in s. 120.74(2) for the year 2011. 

(b)For each rule reviewed under this subsection, OFARR may identify whether the ruLe imposes a 

significant regulatory cost or economic impact and shall schedule and obtain or direct a reasonable economic 

estimate of such cost and impact for each rule so identified. A report on each such estimate shaLL be published 

on the Internet by December 31, 2013. On or before October 1,2013, the agency head shaLl certify in writing 

to the committee that the agency has completed each economic estimate required under this paragraph, and 

thereupon the agency is exempt from the bienniaL review required ins. 120.74(2) for the year 2013. 

(c)The exemption under this paragraph does not appLy unless the agency head certifies in writing to the 

committee, on or before October 1, 2011, that the agency has chosen such exemption and has cooperated 

with OFARR in undertaking the review required in paragraph (a). 

(10)REPEAL.—This section is repeaLed July 1, 2014. 

History.—s. 5, ch. 2011-225; s. 10, ch. 2012-5; s. 3, ch. 2012-27. 

Note.—The words "the ombudsman's" were substituted by the editors for the word "its." 

I 20.7455Legislative survey of regulatory impacts.— 



(1)From July 1,2011, until July 1, 2014, the Legislature may estabLish and maintain an Internet-based 

public survey of regulatory impact soliciting information from the public regarding the kind and degree of 

regulation affecting private activities in the state. The input may incLude, but need not be limited to: 

(a)The registered business name or other name of each reporting person. 

(b)The number and identity of agencies licensing, inspecting, registering, permitting, or otherwise 

regulating lawful activities of the reporting person. 

(c)The types, numbers, and nature of Licenses, permits, and registrations required for various Lawful 

activities of the reporting person. 

(d)The identity of local, state, and federaL agencies, and other entities acting under coLor of law which 

regulate the Lawful activities of the reporting person or otherwise exercise power to enforce laws appLicable 

to such activities. 

(e)The identification and nature of each ordinance, law, or administrative rule or reguLation deemed 

unreasonably burdensome by the reporting person. 

(2)The President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives may certify in writing to 

the chair of the committee and to the Attorney GeneraL the establishment and identity of any Internet- based 

public survey established under this section. 

(3)Any person reporting or otherwise providing information solicited by the Legislature in conformity with 

this section is immune from any enforcement action or prosecution that: 

(a)Is instituted on account of, or in reLiance upon, the fact of reporting or nonreporting of information in 

response to the Legislature's soLicitation of information pursuant to this section; or 

(b)Uses information provided in response to the Legislature's solicitation of information pursuant to this 

section. 

(4)Any alleged violator against whom an enforcement action is brought may object to any proposed 

penalty in excess of the minimum provided by law or rule on the basis that the action is in retaLiation for the 

violator providing or withholding any information in response to the LegisLature's soLicitation of information 

pursuant to this section. If the presiding judge determines that the enforcement action was motivated in 

whole or in part by retaLiation, any penalty imposed is limited to the minimum penaLties provided by Law for 

each separate violation adjudicated. 

History.—s. 6, ch. 2011-225. 

I 20.80Exceptions and special requirements; agencies.— 

(1 )DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS.— 

(a)Division as a party.—Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1 )(a), a hearing in which the division is a party may not 

be conducted by an administrative Law judge assigned by the division. An attorney assigned by the 

Administration Commission shall be the hearing officer. 



(b)Workers' compensation.—Notwithstanding s. 120.52(1), a judge of compensation claims, in 

adjudicating matters under chapter 440, is not an agency or part of an agency for purposes of this chapter. 

(2)DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES.— 

(a)Marketing orders under chapter 527, chapter 573, or chapter 601 are not ruLes. 

(b)Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1 )(a), hearings held by the Department of AgricuLture and Consumer 

Services pursuant to chapter 601 need not be conducted by an administrative law judge assigned by the 

division. 

(3)OFFICE OF FINANCIAL REGULATION.— 

(a)Notwithstanding s. 120.60(1), in proceedings for the issuance, denial, renewal, or amendment of a 

license or approval of a merger pursuant to titLe XXXVIII: 

1 .a.The Office of FinanciaL ReguLation of the Financial Services Commission shall have pubLished in the 

Florida Administrative Weekly notice of the application within 21 days after receipt. 

b.Within 21 days after pubLication of notice, any person may request a hearing. FaiLure to request a 

hearing within 21 days after notice constitutes a waiver of any right to a hearing. The Office of Financial 

Regulation or an applicant may request a hearing at any time prior to the issuance of a finaL order. Hearings 

shall be conducted pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57, except that the Financial Services Commission shall by 

rule provide for participation by the generaL pubLic. 

2.Should a hearing be requested as provided by sub-subparagraph 1 .b., the applicant or Licensee shaLL 

publish at its own cost a notice of the hearing in a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by 

the application. The FinanciaL Services Commission may by rule specify the format and size of the notice. 

3.Notwithstanding s. 120.60(1), and except as provided in subparagraph 4., every appLication for license 

for a new bank, new trust company, new credit union, or new savings and Loan association shall be approved 

or denied within 180 days after receipt of the original application or receipt of the timely requested 

additional information or correction of errors or omissions. Any application for such a license or for acquisition 

of such control which is not approved or denied within the 180-day period or within 30 days after conclusion 

of a public hearing on the application, whichever is Later, shall be deemed approved subject to the 

satisfactory completion of conditions required by statute as a prerequisite to License and approvaL of 

insurance of accounts for a new bank, a new savings and loan association, or a new credit union by the 

appropriate insurer. 

4.In the case of every application for License to establish a new bank, trust company, or capitaL stock 

savings association in which a foreign national proposes to own or control 10 percent or more of any class of 

voting securities, and in the case of every appLication by a foreign national for approvaL to acquire control of a 

bank, trust company, or capitaL stock savings association, the Office of FinanciaL Regulation shall request that 

a public hearing be conducted pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57. Notice of such hearing shall be pubLished by 



the applicant as provided in subparagraph 2. The failure of any such foreign nationaL to appear personally at 

the hearing shalL be grounds for denial of the appLication. Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 120.60(1) and 

subparagraph 3., every appLication invoLving a foreign national shalL be approved or denied within 1 year after 

receipt of the originaL appLication or any timely requested additionaL information or the correction of any 

errors or omissions, or within 30 days after the conclusion of the public hearing on the appLication, whichever 

is later. 

(b)In any application for a license or merger pursuant to title XXXVIII which is referred by the agency to 

the division for hearing, the administrative Law judge shall complete and submit to the agency and to all 

parties a written report consisting of findings of fact and rulings on evidentiary matters. The agency shall 

allow each party at least 10 days in which to submit written exceptions to the report. 

(4)DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION.— 

(a)Business regulation.—The Division of Pari-mutueL Wagering is exempt from the hearing and notice 

requirements of ss. 120.569 and 120.57(1)(a), but only for stewards, judges, and boards of judges when the 

hearing is to be heLd for the purpose of the imposition of fines or suspensions as provided by rules of the 

Division of Pari-mutuel Wagering, but not for revocations, and only upon vioLations of subparagraphs 1 . -6. The 

Division of Pari-mutuel Wagering shaLL adopt rules establishing alternative procedures, including a hearing 

upon reasonable notice, for the following vioLations: 

1 .Horse riding, harness riding, greyhound interference, and jai alai game actions in violation of chapter 

550. 

2.Application and usage of drugs and medication to horses, greyhounds, and jai alai players in violation of 

chapter 550. 

3.Maintaining or possessing any device which could be used for the injection or other infusion of a 

prohibited drug to horses, greyhounds, and jai aLai players in violation of chapter 550. 

4.Suspensions under reciprocity agreements between the Division of Pari-mutuel Wagering and regulatory 

agencies of other states. 

5.Assault or other crimes of violence on premises Licensed for pari-mutueL wagering. 

6.Prearranging the outcome of any race or game. 

(b)Professional regulation.—Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1)(a), formaL hearings may not be conducted by 

the Secretary of Business and Professional ReguLation or a board or member of a board within the Department 

of Business and Professional Regulation for matters relating to the regulation of professions, as defined by 

chapter 455. 

(5)FLORIDA LAND AND WATER ADJUDICATORY COMMISSION.—Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 

120.57(1)(a), when the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission receives a notice of appeal pursuant 

to s. 380.07, the commission shaLl notify the division within 60 days after receipt of the notice of appeal if the 



commission elects to request the assignment of an administrative law judge. 

(6)DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT.—Law enforcement poLicies and procedures of the Department of 

Law Enforcement which relate to the following are not rules as defined by this chapter: 

(a)The collection, management, and dissemination of active criminal inteLLigence information and active 

criminal investigative information; management of criminal investigations; and management of undercover 

investigations and the seLection, assignment, and fictitious identity of undercover personneL. 

(b)The recruitment, management, identity, and remuneration of confidential informants or sources. 

(c)Surveillance techniques, the seLection of surveillance personnel, and eLectronic surveillance, incLuding 

court-ordered and consensuaL interceptions of communication conducted pursuant to chapter 934. 

(d)The safety and release of hostages. 

(e)The provision of security and protection to pubLic figures. 

(f)The protection of witnesses. 

(7)DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES.—Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1)(a), hearings 

conducted within the Department of ChiLdren and Family Services in the execution of those social and 

economic programs administered by the former Division of Family Services of the former Department of 

Health and RehabiLitative Services prior to the reorganization effected by chapter 75-48, Laws of Florida, 

need not be conducted by an administrative law judge assigned by the division. 

(8)DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES.— 

(a)Drivers' licenses. 

1 .Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1)(a), hearings regarding drivers' licensing pursuant to chapter 322 need not 

be conducted by an administrative Law judge assigned by the division. 

2.Notwithstanding s. 120.60(5), canceLLation, suspension, or revocation of a driver's license shaLl be by 

personal delivery to the Licensee or by first-class mail as provided in s. 322.251. 

(b)Wrecker operators.—Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1 )(a), hearings held by the Division of the Florida 

Highway Patrol of the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to deny, suspend, or remove a 

wrecker operator from participating in the wrecker rotation system established by s. 321 .051 need not be 

conducted by an administrative law judge assigned by the division. These hearings shaLL be heLd by a hearing 

officer appointed by the director of the Division of the Florida Highway PatroL. 

(9)OFFICE OF INSURANCE REGULATION.—Notwithstanding s. 120.60(1), every application for a certificate 

of authority as required by s. 624.401 shaLL be approved or denied within 180 days after receipt of the original 

application. Any appLication for a certificate of authority which is not approved or denied within the 180-day 

period, or within 30 days after conclusion of a public hearing held on the appLication, shalL be deemed 

approved, subject to the satisfactory completion of conditions required by statute as a prerequisite to 

licensure. 



(10)DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY.— 

(a)Notwithstanding s. 120.54, the rulemaking provisions of this chapter do not apply to reempLoyment 

assistance appeaLs referees. 

(b)Notwithstanding s. 120.54(5), the uniform ruLes of procedure do not apply to appeal proceedings 

conducted under chapter 443 by the Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission, special deputies, or 

reemployment assistance appeaLs referees. 

(c)Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1 )(a), hearings under chapter 443 may not be conducted by an 

administrative law judge assigned by the division, but instead shaLL be conducted by the Reemployment 

Assistance Appeals Commission in reemployment assistance appeals, reempLoyment assistance appeaLs 

referees, and the Department of Economic Opportunity or its special deputies under s. 443.141. 

(11 )NATIONAL GUARD. —Notwithstanding s. 120.52(16), the enlistment, organization, administration, 

equipment, maintenance, training, and discipLine of the militia, NationaL Guard, organized militia, and 

unorganized militia, as provided by s. 2, Art. X of the State Constitution, are not ruLes as defined by this 

chapter. 

(1 2)PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RELATIONS COMMISSION.— 

(a)Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1 )(a), hearings within the jurisdiction of the Public EmpLoyees ReLations 

Commission need not be conducted by an administrative law judge assigned by the division. 

(b)Section 120.60 does not appLy to certification of employee organizations pursuant to s. 447.307. 

(13)FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION.— 

(a)Agency statements that reLate to cost-recovery clauses, factors, or mechanisms implemented pursuant 

to chapter 366, reLating to public utiLities, are exempt from the provisions of s. 120.54(1)(a). 

(b)Notwithstanding ss. 120.569 and 120.57, a hearing on an objection to proposed action of the FLorida 

Public Service Commission may only address the issues in dispute. Issues in the proposed action which are not 

in dispute are deemed stipuLated. 

(c)The Florida Public Service Commission is exempt from the time limitations in s. 120.60(1) when issuing 

a license. 

(d)Notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter, in implementing the Telecommunications Act of 1996, 

Pub. L. No. 104-104, the PubLic Service Commission is authorized to employ procedures consistent with that 

act. 

(e)Notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter, s. 350.128, or s. 364.381, appelLate jurisdiction for 

Public Service Commission decisions that impLement the Telecommunications Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104- 

104, shall be consistent with the provisions of that act. 

(f)Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter, all public utilities and companies reguLated by the 

Public Service Commission shall be entitLed to proceed under the interim rate provisions of chapter 364 or the 



procedures for interim rates contained in chapter 74-195, Laws of Florida, or as otherwise provided by law. 

(14)DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE.— 

(a)Assessments.—An assessment of tax, penaLty, or interest by the Department of Revenue is not a final 

order as defined by this chapter. Assessments by the Department of Revenue shall be deemed final as 

provided in the statutes and ruLes governing the assessment and collection of taxes. 

(b)Taxpayer contest proceedings.— 

1 .In any administrative proceeding brought pursuant to this chapter as authorized by s. 72.011(1), the 

taxpayer shall be designated the "petitioner" and the Department of Revenue shall be designated the 

"respondent," except that for actions contesting an assessment or denial of refund under chapter 207, the 

Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles shall be designated the "respondent," and for actions 

contesting an assessment or denial of refund under chapters 210, 550, 561, 562, 563, 564, and 565, the 

Department of Business and ProfessionaL Regulation shall be designated the "respondent." 

2.In any such administrative proceeding, the applicable department's burden of proof, except as 

otherwise specifically provided by general law, shall be limited to a showing that an assessment has been 

made against the taxpayer and the factual and legal grounds upon which the applicabLe department made the 

assessment. 

3.a.Prior to filing a petition under this chapter, the taxpayer shall pay to the appLicabLe department the 

amount of taxes, penaLties, and accrued interest assessed by that department which are not being contested 

by the taxpayer. FaiLure to pay the uncontested amount shall result in the dismissal of the action and 

imposition of an additionaL penalty of 25 percent of the amount taxed. 

b.The requirements of s. 72.011(2) and (3)(a) are jurisdictional for any action under this chapter to 

contest an assessment or denial of refund by the Department of Revenue, the Department of Highway Safety 

and Motor Vehicles, or the Department of Business and Professional Regulation. 

4.Except as provided in s. 220.719, further coLlection and enforcement of the contested amount of an 

assessment for nonpayment or underpayment of any tax, interest, or penaLty shaLL be stayed beginning on the 

date a petition is filed. Upon entry of a finaL order, an agency may resume colLection and enforcement action. 

5.The prevailing party, in a proceeding under ss. 120.569 and 120.57 authorized by s. 72.011(1), may 

recover all legal costs incurred in such proceeding, including reasonabLe attorney's fees, if the Losing party 

fails to raise a justiciable issue of law or fact in its petition or response. 

6.Upon review pursuant to s. 120.68 of finaL agency action concerning an assessment of tax, penaLty, or 

interest with respect to a tax imposed under chapter 212, or the denial of a refund of any tax imposed under 

chapter 212, if the court finds that the Department of Revenue improperly rejected or modified a concLusion 

of Law, the court may award reasonabLe attorney's fees and reasonable costs of the appeal to the prevailing 

appellant. 



to or and to 

administrative to or 

to s. and the of 

pursuant to s. in the to the of 

the to the 

of Department of the to 

of a by an Department of 

the for review an 

administrative law judge s. 

or and and 

to be enforced pursuant to s. 120.69 or, aLternativeLy, by any method prescribed by 

law for the enforcement of judicial support orders, except contempt. Hearings heLd by the Division of 

Administrative Hearings pursuant to ss. 409.256, 409.2563, and 409.25635 shaLL be heLd in the judicial circuit 

where the person receiving services under Title IV-D resides or, if the person receiving services under Title IV- 

D does not reside in this state, in the judicial circuit where the respondent resides. If the department and the 

respondent agree, the hearing may be held in another Location. If ordered by the administrative law judge, 

the hearing may be conducted telephonicaLly or by videoconference. 

(15)DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.—Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1)(a), formaL hearings may not be conducted by 

the State Surgeon General, the Secretary of HeaLth Care Administration, or a board or member of a board 

within the Department of HeaLth or the Agency for Health Care Administration for matters reLating to the 

regulation of professions, as defined by chapter 456. Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1)(a), hearings conducted 

within the Department of HeaLth in execution of the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, 

Infants, and Children; ChiLd Care Food Program; Children's Medical Services Program; the Brain and Spinal 

Cord Injury Program; and the exemption from disquaLification reviews for certified nurse assistants program 

need not be conducted by an administrative law judge assigned by the division. The Department of HeaLth 

may contract with the Department of ChiLdren and Family Services for a hearing officer in these matters. 

(16)FLORIDA BUILDING COMMISSION.— 

(a)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 120.542, the Florida Building Commission may not accept a 

petition for waiver or variance and may not grant any waiver or variance from the requirements of the Florida 

Building Code. 

(b)The Florida Building Commission shall adopt within the Florida Building Code criteria and procedures 

for alternative means of compLiance with the code or local amendments thereto, for enforcement by local 

governments, local enforcement districts, or other entities authorized by law to enforce the Florida Building 

Code. Appeals from the denial of the use of aLternative means shall be heard by the local board, if one exists, 



and may be appeaLed to the FLorida Building Commission. 

(c)Notwithstanding ss. 120.565, 120.569, and 120.57, the Florida Building Commission and hearing officer 

panels appointed by the commission in accordance with s. 553.775(3)(c)1. may conduct proceedings to review 

decisions of local building code officials in accordance with s. 553.775(3)(c). 

(d)Section 120.541 (3) does not apply to the adoption of amendments and the trienniaL update to the 

Florida Building Code expressly authorized by s. 553.73. 

(17)STATE FIRE MARSHAL.—Section 120.541(3) does not apply to the adoption of amendments and the 

triennial update to the FLorida Fire Prevention Code expressly authorized by s. 633.0215. 

(18)DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.—Sections 120.54(3)(b) and 120.541 do not appLy to the 

adjustment of tolls pursuant to s. 338.165(3). 

History.—s. 41, ch. 96-159; s. 13, ch. 98-166; s. 10, ch. 99-8; s. 4, ch. 99-397; s. 1, ch. 2000-141; s. 17, ch. 2000-151; s. 2, ch. 

2000-160; s. 11, ch. 2000-304; s. 4, ch. 2000-305; ss. 2, 11, ch. 2000-312; s. 4, ch. 2000-355; s. 3, ch. 2000-367; s. 18, ch. 2001- 

158; s. 2, ch. 2001-279; s. 8, ch. 2002-173; s. 1, ch. 2002-239; s. 3, ch. 2003-36; s. 139, ch. 2003-261; s. 1, ch. 2004-52; s. 7, ch. 

2004-334; ss. 12, 13, ch. 2005-39; s. 1, ch. 2005-96; s. 13, ch. 2005-147; s. 1, ch. 2005-209; s. 5, ch. 2006-45; s. 9, ch. 2008-6; s. 

16, ch. 2008-104; s. 5, ch. 2009-187; s. 1, ch. 2011-64; s. 50, ch. 2011-142; s. 8, ch. 2011-225; s. 43, ch. 2012-30. 

120.8lExceptions and special requirements; general areas.— 

(1)EDUCATIONAL UNITS.— 

(a)Notwithstanding s. 120.536(1) and the flush left provisions of s. 120.52(8), district schooL boards may 

adopt rules to implement their generaL powers under s. 1001.41. 

(b)The preparation or modification of curricula by an educational unit is not a rule as defined by this 

chapter. 

(c)Notwithstanding s. 120.52(1 6), any tests, test scoring criteria, or testing procedures reLating to 

student assessment which are deveLoped or administered by the Department of Education pursuant to s. 

1003.43, s. 1003.438, s. 1008.22, or s. 1008.25, or any other statewide educational tests required by law, are 

not rules. 

(d)Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, educational units shall not be required to include 

the full text of the rule or rule amendment in notices relating to rules and need not pubLish these or other 

notices in the Florida Administrative Weekly, but notice shall be made: 

1 .By publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the affected area; 

2.By mail to all persons who have made requests of the educational unit for advance notice of its 

proceedings and to organizations representing persons affected by the proposed rule; and 

3.By posting in appropriate pLaces so that those particular classes of persons to whom the intended action 

is directed may be duLy notified. 

(e)Educational units, other than the Florida School for the Deaf and the BLind, shaLL not be required to 





(c)Notwithstanding ss. 120.569 and 120.57, in a preLiminary hearing for revocation of parole, no Less than 

7 days' notice of hearing shall be given. 

(4)REGULATION OF PROFESSIONS.—Notwithstanding s. 120.569(2)(g), in a proceeding against a Licensed 

professionaL or in a proceeding for licensure of an applicant for professional licensure which invoLves 

allegations of sexual misconduct: 

(a)The testimony of the victim of the sexuaL misconduct need not be corroborated. 

(b)Specific instances of prior consensual sexual activity between the victim of the sexual misconduct and 

any person other than the offender is inadmissibLe, unless: 

1 .It is first estabLished to the administrative law judge in a proceeding in camera that the victim of the 

sexual misconduct is mistaken as to the identity of the perpetrator of the sexuaL misconduct; or 

2.If consent by the victim of the sexuaL misconduct is at issue and it is first estabLished to the 

administrative law judge in a proceeding in camera that such evidence tends to estabLish a pattern of conduct 

or behavior on the part of such victim which is so similar to the conduct or behavior in the case that it is 

relevant to the issue of consent. 

(c)Reputation evidence relating to the prior sexuaL conduct of a victim of sexuaL misconduct is 

inadmissible. 

(5)HUNTING AND FISHING REGULATION.—Agency action which has the effect of aLtering established 

hunting or fishing seasons, or altering established annual harvest limits for saltwater fishing if the procedure 

for aLtering such harvest limits is set out by rule of the Fish and WiLdlife Conservation Commission, is not a 

rule as defined by this chapter, provided such action is adequateLy noticed in the area affected through 

publishing in a newspaper of general circulation or through notice by broadcasting by eLectronic media. 

(6)RISK IMPACT STATEMENT.—The Department of Environmental Protection shaLL prepare a risk impact 

statement for any rule that is proposed for approval by the EnvironmentaL Regulation Commission and that 

establishes or changes standards or criteria based on impacts to or effects upon human heaLth. The 

Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services shall prepare a risk impact statement for any ruLe that is 

proposed for adoption that estabLishes standards or criteria based on impacts to or effects upon human 

health. 

(a)This subsection does not appLy to rules adopted pursuant to federaLLy delegated or mandated programs 

where such rules are identicaL or substantiaLly identical to the federaL regulations or Laws being adopted or 

implemented by the Department of Environmental Protection or Department of AgricuLture and Consumer 

Services, as applicable. However, the Department of Environmental Protection and the Department of 

Agriculture and Consumer Services shall identify any risk analysis information available to them from the 

Federal Government that has formed the basis of such a rule. 

(b)This subsection does not appLy to emergency ruLes adopted pursuant to this chapter. 



(c)The Department of EnvironmentaL Protection and the Department of AgricuLture and Consumer 

Services shall prepare and pubLish notice of the availability of a clear and concise risk impact statement for all 

applicable rules. The risk impact statement must explain the risk to the public health addressed by the rule 

and shall identify and summarize the source of the scientific information used in evaLuating that risk. 

(d)Nothing in this subsection shaLL be construed to create a new cause of action or basis for chaLlenging a 

rule nor diminish any existing cause of action or basis for challenging a rule. 

History.—s. 42, ch. 96-159; s. 17, ch. 97-176; s. 49, ch. 99-2; s. 65, ch. 99-245; s. 7, ch. 99-379; s. 28, ch. 99-398; s. 4, ch. 

2000-214; s. 897, ch. 2002-387; s. 17, ch. 2008-104; s. 4, ch. 2010-78; s. 9, ch. 2011-225. 



CHAPTER 64B16-25 
ORGANIZATION AND PURPOSE 

64B 16-25.130 Executive Director (Repealed) 
64B16-25.170 Probable Cause Panel 
64B 16-25.340 Meetings and Workshops 

64B16-25.130 Executive Director. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 48.111(2), 456.004, 456.009 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-8.04, 21S-8.004, 

Amended 7-30-91, Formerly 21S-25.130, 61F10-25.130, 59X-25.130, Amended 10-29-9 7, 11-2 -03, Repealed 3-28-12. 

64B16-25.170 Probable Cause Panel. 
(1) The determination as to whether probable cause exists to believe that a violation of Chapter 456, Part II, 465, 499, or 893, 

F.S., or of the rules promulgated thereunder, has occurred shall be made by the probable cause panel. The panel shall meet as 

necessary. 
(2) The probable cause panel shall be composed of two (2) persons, either current or former board members appointed by the 

chairman of the Board. One appointee must be a current board member. The panel must include a former or current board member 
who is a licensed pharmacist. An appointee may be a former board member. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.073 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-8.08, 21S-8.008, 21S-25.170, 61F10- 

25.1 70, 59X-25.170, Amended 11-24-09. 

64B16-25.340 Meetings and Workshops. 
The following are considered to be official meetings of the Board: 

(1) Board Meetings. 
(2) Examination Committee Meetings. 
(3) Tripartite Continuing Education Committee Meeting. 
(4) Meetings of committees set out in the official minutes of the Board where statutory authority is given by the practice act. 

(5) Meetings of a Board member with Department staff or contractors of the Department at the Department's or Board's 
request. Any participation or meeting of members noticed or unnoticed will be on file in the Board office. 

(6) Where a Board member has been requested by the State Surgeon General to participate in a meeting. 
(7) Probable Cause Panel meetings. 
(8) All activity of Board members, if authorized by the Board, when grading, proctoring or reviewing examinations given by the 

Department. 
(9) All participation in Board authorized meetings with professional associations of which the Board is a member or invitee. 

This would include all meetings of the National Association of Boards of Pharmacy of which the Board is a member as well as 

Board authorized participation in meetings of national or professional associations or organizations involved in educating, regulating 
and reviewing the profession over which the Board has statutory authority. 

(10) Any and all other activities which are Board approved and which are necessary for Board members to attend in order to 

further protect the public health, safety and welfare, through the regulation of which the Board has statutory authority. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.011(4) FS. Law Implemented 456.011(4) FS. History—New 9-30-81, Amended 11-13-81, 12-31-81, Formerly 21S-1 0.05, 

21S-10.005, Amended 7-30-91, Formerly 21S-25.340, 61F10-25.340, 59X-25.340, Amended 2-18-08. 



CHAPTER 64B16-26 
PHARMACISTS LICENSURE 

64B16-26.l00 Pharmacists Newly Licensed (Repealed) 
64B16-26.101 Fees and License Renewal Application 
64B16-26.1001 Examination and Application Fees 
64B16-26.1002 Initial License Fees 
64B16-26.1003 Active License Renewal Fees 
64B16-26.1004 Inactive License Election; Renewal; Fees 
64B16-26.1005 Retired License Election; Renewal; Fees. 
64B 16-26.1012 Approved Continuing Education Provider Renewal Fee 
64B16-26.102 Inactive License Renewal (Repealed) 
64B16-26.1021 Delinquent License Reversion; Reinstatement; Fees 
64B16-26.1022 Permit Fees 
64B 16-26.103 Continuing Education Credits; Renewal 
64B 16-26.1031 Influenza Immunization Certification Program 
64B 16-26.1032 Influenza Immunization Administration Certification Application 
64B16-26.104 Exemptions for Members of the Armed Forces; Spouses 
64B 16-26.105 Consultant Pharmacists Initial Registration Fee and Renewal Fee (Repealed) 
64B16-26.106 Nuclear Pharmacists Initial Registration Fee and Renewal Fee (Repealed) 
64B16-26.107 ffiactive Nuclear Pharmacist License Renewal (Repealed) 
64B 16-26.200 Examination Requirements 
64B 16-26.201 Reexamination (Repealed) 
64B16-26.202 Examination Review Procedure (Repealed) 
64B 16-26.203 Licensure by Examination; Application 
64B 16-26.2031 Licensure by Examination; Foreign Pharmacy Graduates 
64B 16-26.2032 Pharmacy Intern Registration Internship Requirements (U.S. Pharmacy Students/Graduates) 
64B 16-26.2033 Pharmacy Intern Registration and Internship Requirements (Foreign Pharmacy Graduates) 
64B16-26.2035 Examination Fees (Repealed) 
64B 16-26.204 Licensure by Endorsement 
64B16-26.205 Requirements for Foreign Pharmacy Graduates to Be Admitted to the Pharmacist Licensure Examination (Repealed) 
64B 16-26.300 Consultant Pharmacist Licensure 
64B16-26.301 Subject Matter for Consultant Pharmacist Training Program 
64B 16-26.302 Subject Matter for Consultant Pharmacist Licensure Renewal Continuing Education 
64B16-26.303 Nuclear Pharmacist Licensure 
64B 16-26.304 Subject Matter for Nuclear Pharmacist License Renewal Continuing Education Programs 
64B 16-26.320 Subject Matter for Continuing Education to Order and Evaluate Laboratory Tests 
64B 16-26.350 Requirements for Pharmacy Technician Registration 
64B 16-26.351 Standards for Approval of Registered Pharmacy Technician Training Programs 
64B16-26.355 Subject Matter for Registered Pharmacy Technician Continuing Education 
64B 16-26.400 Pharmacy Interns; Registration; Employment 
64B16-26.401 Requirements for an ffiternship Program Sufficient to QualiQi an Applicant for Licensure by Examination (Repealed) 
64B 16-26.600 Tripartite Continuing Education Committee 
64B 16-26.601 Standards for Approval of Courses and Providers 
64B 16-26.6012 Guidelines for Board Ordered Disciplinary Continuing Education Courses 
64B 16-26.603 Continuing Education Records Requirements 
64B16-26.602 Recommendation by the Tripartite Continuing Education Committee (Repealed) 
64B16-26.606 Number of Required Hours (Repealed) 

64B16-26.100 Pharmacists Newly Licensed. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.013(2), 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(2), 465.008 FS. History—New 3-19-79, Formerly 21S-6.04, Amended]- 
7-87, 12-29-88, 10-16-90, Formerly 21S-6.004, Amended 1-10-93, Formerly 21S-26.100, 61F10-26.100, 59X-26.100, Amended 4-1 7-01, Repealed 
3-10-05. 



64B16-26.1O1 Fees and License Renewal Application. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 456.064, 465.008 FS. History—New 3-19-79, Formerly 21S-6.05, Amended 1-7-87, 4-21-87, 12- 

29-88, Formerly 21S-6.005, Amended 7-31-91, 1-10-93, Formerly 21S-26.101, 61F10-26.101, Amended 3-10-96, Formerly 59X-26.101, Amended 12-31-97, 

12-3 -00, 3-18-01, 10-15-01, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.1001 Examination and Application Fees. 
(1) The non-refundable examination fee for licensure by examination shall be $100, payable to the Board. Examination fees for 

the National Practice Examination and jurisprudence examination are payable to the examination vendor. 
(2) The non-refundable application fee licensure by endorsement shall be S 100, payable to the Board. 
(3) The non-refundable application fee for a continuing education provider seeking approved provider status shall be $150, 

payable to the Board. 
(4) The non-refundable application fee for the Influenza Immunization Certification shall be $55, payable to the Board. 
(5) The non-refundable application fee for registered pharmacy technicians shall be $50, payable to the Board. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.009 FS. Law Implemented 456.025(7), 465.007, 465.0075, 465.009, 465.014 FS. History—New 1-11-05, 

Amended 10-30-0 7, 11-15-09, 7-7-10. 

64B16-26.1002 Initial License Fees. 
(1) The initial license fee for a pharmacist license shall be $190 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section 456.065(3), 

F.S. 
(2) The initial license fee for a consultant pharmacist license shall be $50 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section 

456.065(3), F.S. 

(3) The initial license fee for a nuclear pharmacist license shall be $50 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section 
456.065(3), F.S. 

(4) The initial registration fee for a registered pharmacy technician shall be $50 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to 
Section 456.065(3), F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(2), 456.065(3), 465.0125, 465.0126, 465.014 FS. History—New 

1-11-05, Amended 11-24-09. 

64B16-26.1003 Active License Renewal Fees. 
(1) The biennial license renewal fee for an active pharmacist license shall be $200 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to 

Section 456.065(3), F.S. 
(2) The biennial license renewal fee for a consultant pharmacist active license shall be $100 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee 

pursuant to Section 456.065(3), F.S. 

(3) The biennial license renewal fee for a nuclear pharmacist active license shall be $100 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee 

pursuant to Section 456.065(3), F.S. 

(4) The biennial registration renewal fee for a registered pharmacy technician shall be $50 plus $5 unlicensed activity fee 

pursuant to Section 456.065(3), F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.036, 465.005, 465.008, 465.0125, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 456.065 (3), 465.008, 465.0125, 465.0126, 

465.014 FS. History—New 1-11-05, Amended 2-24-1 0, 2-1-12. 

64B16-26.1004 Inactive License Election; Renewal; Fees. 
(1) A pharmacist licensee may elect: 
(a) At the time of license renewal to place the license on inactive status by submitting a written request with the board for 

inactive status and submitting the inactive status renewal fee of $245 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section 
456.065(3), F.S. 

(b) At the time of license renewal, if the license is inactive, to continue the license on inactive status by submitting a written 
request with the board for inactive status and submitting the inactive status renewal fee of $245 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee 

pursuant to Section 456.065(3), F.S. 



(c) At the time of license renewal to change the inactive status license to active status, provided the licensee meets the 
continuing education requirements of Rule 64B 16-26.103, F.A.C., for each biennium the license was on inactive status, submits the 
reactivation fee of $70, and the current active renewal fee set forth in Rule 64B16-26.100l, F.A.C. 

(d) At a time other than license renewal to change the inactive status license to active status, provided the licensee meets the 
continuing education requirements of Rule 64B16-26.103, F.A.C., for each biennium the license was on inactive status and submits 
the reactivation fee of $70, a change of status fee of $25 and the difference between the inactive status renewal fee and the active 
status renewal fee, if any exists. 

(2) A consultant pharmacist licensee may elect: 

(a) At the time of license renewal to place the license on inactive status by submitting a written request with the board for 
inactive status and submitting the inactive status renewal fee of $100 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section 
456.065(3), F.S. 

(b) At the time of license renewal, if the consultant pharmacist license is inactive, to continue the license on inactive status by 
submitting a written request with the board for inactive status and submitting the inactive status renewal fee of $100 plus a $5 

unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section 456.065(3), F.S. 

(c) At the time of license renewal to change the inactive status consultant pharmacist license to active status, provided the 

consultant pharmacist licensee meets the continuing education requirements of subsection 64B16-26.103(2), F.A.C., for each 
biennium the license was on inactive status and by submitting a reactivation fee of $25, and the active consultant pharmacist renewal 
fee set forth in Rule 64B16-26.1003, F.A.C. 

(d) At a time other than license renewal to change the inactive status license to active status, provided the licensee meets the 
continuing education requirements of Rule 64B 16-26.103, F.A.C., for each biennium the license was on inactive status, and submits 
the reactivation fee of $25, a change of status fee of $25 and the difference between the inactive status renewal fee and the active 
status renewal fee, if any exists. 

(3) A nuclear pharmacist licensee may elect: 

(a) At the time of license renewal to place the nuclear pharmacist license on inactive status by submitting a written request with 
the board for inactive status and submitting the inactive status renewal fee of $100 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to 

Section 456.065(3), F.S. 

(b) At the time of license renewal, if the nuclear pharmacist license is inactive, to continue the license on inactive status by 
submitting a written request with the board for inactive status and submitting the inactive status renewal fee of $100 plus a $5 

unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section ), F.S. 

(c) At the time of license renewal to change the inactive status license to active status, provided the nuclear pharmacist meets 
the continuing education requirements of Rule 64B 16-26.304, F.A.C., for each biennium the license was on inactive status, and by 
submitting a reactivation fee of $50, and the active nuclear license renewal fee set forth in Rule 64B16-26.1003, F.A.C. 

(d) At a time other than license renewal to change the inactive status license to active status, provided the nuclear pharmacist 
licensee meets the continuing education requirements of Rule 64B16-26.304, F.A.C., for each biennium the license was on inactive 
status and by submitting a reactivation fee of $50, a change of status fee of $25 and the difference between the inactive status 
renewal fee and the active status renewal fee, if any exists. 

(4) A registered pharmacy technician may elect: 

(a) At the time of renewal to place the registered pharmacy technician registration on inactive status by submitting a written 
request with the board for inactive status and submitting the inactive status renewal fee of $50 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee 

pursuant to Section .065(3), F.S. 

(b) At the time of renewal, if the registered pharmacy technician registration is inactive, to continue the registration on inactive 

status by submitting a written request with the board for inactive status and submitting the inactive status renewal fee of $50 plus a 

$5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section ), F.S. 

(c) At the time of renewal to change the inactive status registration to active status, provided the registered pharmacy technician 
meets the continuing education requirements of Rule 64Bl6-26.l03, F.A.C., for each biennium the registration was on inactive 
status, and by submitting a reactivation fee of $50, and the active registration fee set forth in Rule 64Bl6-26.l003, F.A.C. 

(d) At a time other than renewal to change the inactive status registration to active status, provided the registered pharmacy 
technician meets the continuing education requirements of Rule 64B16-26.103, F.A.C., for each biennium the registration was on 
inactive status and by submitting a reactivation fee of $50, a change of status fee of $25 and the difference between the inactive 



status renewal fee and the active status renewal fee, if any exists. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.036, 465.005, 465.012, 465.0125, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 456.065 (3), 465.012, 465.0125, 465.0126 

FS. History—New 1-11-05, Amended 10-30-0 7, 10-27-09. 

64B16-26.1005 Retired License Election; Renewal; Fees. 
(1) A licensee may elect to place his or her license on retired status. 

(a) At the time of license renewal, to place the license on retired status, the licensee must submit a written request with the board 
for retired status and submit the retired status fee of $50.00 pursuant to Section 456.036(4)(b), F.S., and the current unlicensed 
activity fee. 

(b) At a time other than license renewal, to place the license on retired status, the licensee must submit a written request to the 

Board for the retired status plus submit the retired status fee of $50.00 pursuant to Section 456.036(4)(b), F.S., plus a change of 
status fee of $25.00, plus the current unlicensed activity fee. 

(c) Before the license of a retired status licensee is reactivated, the licensee must meet the continuing education requirements in 
Rule 64B16-26.103, F.A.C., and pay any renewal fees imposed on an active status licensee for all biennial licensure periods, plus the 
current unlicensed activity fee during which the licensee was on retired status. 

(2) Any pharmacist applying for an active status license who has been on retired status for 5 years or more, or if licensed 
elsewhere, has not been active during the past 5 years, shall as a condition of licensure, demonstrate that he or she is able to practice 
with the care and skill sufficient to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public by: 

(a) If inactive for less than 5 years, the licensee must pass a jurisprudence examination; 
(b) If inactive for 5 or more years, in addition to paragraph (a), the licensee must pass the NAPLEX. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.036(15) FS. Law Implemented 456.013, 456. 036(4,)(b) FS. History—New 11-29-06, Amended 12-22-09. 

64B16-26.1012 Approved Continuing Education Provider Renewal Fee. 
The biennial fee to renew as an approved continuing education provider shall be $150. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.013(9), 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(9), 465.009, 465.012 FS. History—New 1-11-05. 

64B16-26.1021 Delinquent License Reversion; Reinstatement; Fees. 
(1) An active or inactive license that is not renewed by midnight of the expiration date of the license shall automatically revert 

to delinquent status. 
(2) A pharmacist may request that a delinquent license be reinstated to active or inactive status, provided the licensee meets the 

continuing education requirements of Rule 64B16-26.103, F.A.C., for each biennium the license was on inactive status, and by 
submitting a reactivation fee of $100 plus the current fee for an active status or inactive status license set forth in Rule 64B 16- 

26.1003 or 64B16-26.1004, F.A.C. 
(3) A consultant pharmacist may request that a delinquent consultant pharmacist license be reinstated to an active or inactive 

status by submitting a delinquent fee of $100 plus the current fee for an active or inactive status consultant pharmacist license set 

forth in Rule 64Bl6-26.l003 or 64Bl6-26.1004, F.A.C. 
(4) A nuclear pharmacist may request that a delinquent nuclear pharmacist license be reinstated to an active or inactive license 

status by submitting a delinquent fee of $100 plus the current fee for an active or inactive nuclear pharmacist license set forth in 

Rule 64B16-26.1003 or 64B16-26.1004, F.A.C. 
(5) A registered pharmacy technician may request that a delinquent registered pharmacy technician registration be reinstated to 

an active or inactive status provided the registered pharmacy technician meets the continuing education requirements of Rule 
64Bl6-26.103, F.A.C., for each biennium the registration was on inactive status, and by submitting a reactivation fee of $25 plus the 

current fee for an active or inactive status registered pharmacy technician registration set forth in Rule 64B 16-26.1003 or 64B 16- 

26.1004, F.A.C. 
(6) A license in delinquent status that is not renewed prior to midnight of the expiration date of the current licensure cycle shall 

be rendered null without any further action by the Department. Any subsequent license shall be the result of applying for and 
meeting all requirements imposed on an applicant for new licensure. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.036, 465.005, 465.012 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 465.012 FS. History—New 1-11-05, Amended 10-27-09. 



64B16-26.102 Inactive License Renewal. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.008, 465.012 FS. History—New 3-19-79, Formerly 21S-6.06, Amended 1-7-87, 12-29-88, 

Formerly 21S-6.006, Amended 7-31-91, 1-10-93, Formerly 21S-26.102, 61F10-26.102, Amended 3-10-96, Formerly 59X-26.102, Amended 3-18- 

01, Repealed 3-1 0-05. 

64B16-26.1022 Permit Fees. 
(1) The initial permit fee for a pharmacy, as provided by Section 465.022(8)(a), F.S., shall be $250. 
(2) The biennial permit renewal fee for a pharmacy, as provided by Section 465.022(8)(b), F.S., shall be $250. 
(3) The change of location fee for a pharmacy, as provided by Section 465.022(8)(d), F.S., shall be $100. 
(4) The delinquent fee for a pharmacy permit, as provided by Section 465 .022(8)(c), F.S., shall be $100. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022(8) FS. Law Implemented 465.022(8) FS. History—New 1-11-05. 

64B16-26.103 Continuing Education Credits; Renewal. 
(1) Prior to biennal renewal of pharmacist licensure, a licensee shall complete no less than 30 hours of approved courses of 

continued professional pharmaceutical education within the 24 month period prior to the expiration date of the license. The 
following conditions shall apply. 

(a) Upon a licensee's first renewal of licensure, the licensee must document the completion of one (1) hour of board approved 
continuing education which includes the topics of Human Immunodeficiency Virus and Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome; 
the modes of transmission, including transmission from a healthcare worker to a patient and the patient to the healthcare worker; 
infection control procedures, including universal precautions; epidemiology of the disease; related infections including tuberculosis 
(TB); clinical management; prevention; and current Florida law on AIDS and its impact on testing, confidentiality of test results, and 
treatment of patients. In order to meet this requirement, licensees must demonstrate that the course includes information on the State 
of Florida law on HIV/AIDS and its impact on testing, reporting, the offering of HIV testing to pregnant women, and partner 
notification issues pursuant to Sections 381.004 and 384.25, F.S. Any HIV/AIDS continuing education course taken during the 
second or subsequent renewal of licensure may be applied to satisfy the general continuing education hours requirement. 

(b) The initial renewal of a pharmacist license will not require completion of courses of continued professional pharmaceutical 
education hours if the license was issued less than 12 months prior to the expiration date of the license. If the initial renewal occurs 
12 months or more after the initial licensure, then 15 hours of continued professional pharmaceutical education hours shall be 
completed prior to the renewal of the license but no earlier than the date of initial licensure 

(c) Prior to renewal a licensee must complete, within the 24 month period prior to the expiration date of the license, a two-hour 
continuing education course approved in advance by the Board on medication errors that covers the study of root-cause analysis, 
error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. Hours obtained pursuant to this section may be applied by the licensee to the 

requirements of subsection (1). 

(d) Five hours of continuing education in the subject area of risk management may be obtained by attending one fttll day or 
eight (8) hours of a board meeting at which disciplinary hearings are conducted by the Board of Pharmacy in compliance with the 
following: 

1. The licensee must sign in with the Executive Director or designee of the Board before the meeting day begins; 
2. The licensee must remain in continuous attendance; 
3. The licensee cannot receive continuing education credit for attendance at a board meeting if required to appear before the 

board; and 
4. The maximum continuing education hours allowable per biennium under this paragraph shall be ten (10). 

(e) A member of the Board of Pharmacy may obtain five (5) hours of continuing education in the subject area of risk 
management for attendance at one Board meeting at which disciplinary hearings are conducted. The maximum continuing education 
hours allowable per biennium under this paragraph shall be ten (10). 

(f) Up to five hours per biennium of continuing education credit may be fttlfilled by the performance of volunteer services to the 
indigent as provided in Section ), F.S., or to underserved populations, or in areas of critical need within the state where the 
licensee practices. In order to receive credit, the licensee must make application to and receive approval in advance from the Board. 
Application shall be made on form DH-MQA 1170 (Rev. 02/09), Individual Request for Continuing Education for Volunteers, 
which is hereby incorporated by reference. The form can be obtained from the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 



#C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254. One hour credit shall be given for each two hours volunteered in the 24 months prior to the 
expiration date of the license. In the application for approval, the licensee shall disclose the type, nature and extent of services to be 
rendered, the facility where the services will be rendered, the number of patients expected to be serviced, and a statement indicating 
that the patients to be served are indigent. If the licensee intends to provide services in underserved or critical need areas, the 

application shall provide a brief explanation as to those facts. A licensee who is completing community service as a condition of 
discipline imposed by the board cannot use such service to complete continuing education requirements. 

(g) Continuing education credit shall be granted for completion of post professional degree programs provided by accredited 
colleges or schools of pharmacy. Credit shall be awarded at the rate of 5 hours of continuing education credit per semester hour 
completed within the 24 months prior to the expiration date of the license. 

(h) Continuing education may consist of post-graduate studies, institutes, seminars, lectures, conferences, workshops, 
correspondence courses, or other educational opportunities which advance the practice of the profession of pharmacy if approved by 
the Board. A course shall be approved prior to completion and will be evaluated by the Tripartite Committee using the standards 
found in Rule 64B 16-26.601, F.A.C. Individuals must submit requests for course approval at least 45 days in advance of the 
program or course by completing the approved application form DOH/MQA/PH 112, (Rev. 6/12), entitled Individual Requests for 
Continuing Education Credit, which is incorporated by reference, and which can be obtained from 
http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-O 1636 and the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254, or from the website located at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. Individuals seeking 
course approval must attach to the application a detailed program outline, overview or syllabus which describes the educational 
content, objectives and faculty qualifications. 

(i) Any volunteer expert witness who is providing expert witness opinions for cases being reviewed by the Department of 
Health pursuant to Chapter 465, F.S., shall receive five (5) hours of credit in the area of risk management for each case reviewed in 

the 24 months prior to the expiration date of the license, up to a maximum often (10) hours per biennium. 
(j) The presenter of a live seminar, a live video teleconference or through an interactive computer-based application shall 

receive 1 credit for each course credit hour presented, however presenter will not receive additional credit for multiple same course 
presentations. 

(k) All programs approved by the ACPE for continuing education for pharmacists are deemed approved by the Board for 
general continuing education hours for pharmacists. Any course necessary to meet the continuing education requirement for 
HIV/AIDS, medication errors, or consultant pharmacist license renewal shall be Board approved. 

(1) General continuing education earned by a non-resident pharmacist in another state that is not ACPE approved, but is 

approved by the board of pharmacy in the state of residence can be applied to meet the requirements of license renewal in subsection 
(1) above. 

(m) At least ten (10) of the required 30 hours must be obtained either at a live seminar, a live video teleconference, or through 
an interactive computer-based application. 

(2) Prior to renewal a consultant pharmacist shall complete no less than 24 hours of Board approved continuing education in the 
course work specified in Rule 64B16-26.302, F.A.C., within the 24 month period prior to the expiration date of the consultant 
license. The hours earned to satisfy this requirement cannot be used to apply toward the 30 hours required in subsection (1) above. 
However, if consultant recertification hours are earned and not used to meet the requirements of this paragraph, they may be applied 
by the licensee to the 30 hours required in subsection (1). 

(a) If the initial renewal of a consultant pharmacist license occurs less than 12 months after the initial licensure, then completion 
of consultant courses of continuing education hours will not be required. 

(b) If the initial renewal of a consultant pharmacist license occurs 12 months or more after the initial licensure, then 12 hours of 
consultant continuing education hours must be completed prior to the renewal date of the license but no earlier than the date of 
initial licensure. 

(3) Prior to renewal a nuclear pharmacist shall complete no less than 24 hours of Board approved continuing education in the 
course work specified in Rule 64B16-26.304, F.A.C., within the 24 month period prior to the expiration date of the nuclear 
pharmacist license. The hours earned to satisfy this requirement cannot be used to apply toward the 30 hours required in subsection 
(1) above. However, if nuclear pharmacist license renewal hours are earned and not used to meet the requirements of this paragraph, 
they may be applied by the licensee to the 30 hours required in subsection (1). 

(a) If the initial renewal of a nuclear pharmacist license occurs less than 12 months after the initial licensure, then completion of 



courses of nuclear pharmacy continuing education hours will not be required. 
(b) If the initial renewal of a nuclear pharmacist license occurs 12 months or more after the initial licensure, then 12 hours of 

nuclear pharmacy continuing education hours must be completed prior to the renewal date of the license but no earlier than the date 
of initial licensure. 

(c) All programs approved by the ACPE for continuing education for nuclear pharmacists are deemed approved by the Board 
for general continuing education hours for nuclear pharmacists. 

(4) Prior to renewal a registered phamacy technician shall complete no less than twenty (20) hours of Board approved 
continuing education in the course work specified in Rule 64B16-26.355, F.A.C., within the 24 month period prior to the expiration 
date of the phamacy technician registration. 

(a) Upon a pharmacy technician's first renewal, registrtant must document the completion of one (1) hour of board approved 
continuing education which includes the topics of Human Immunodeficiency Virus and Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome; 
the modes of transmission, including transmission from a healthcare worker to a patient and the patient to the healthcare worker; 
infection control procedures, including universal precautions; epidemiology of the disease; related infections including tuberculosis 
(TB); clinical management; prevention; and current Florida law on AIDS and its impact on testing, confidentiality of test results, and 
treatment of patients. In order to meet this requirement, licensees must demonstrate that the course includes information on the State 
of Florida law on HIV/AIDS and its impact on testing, reporting, the offering of HIV testing to pregnant women, and partner 
notification issues pursuant to Sections 381.004 and 384.25, F.S. Any HIV/AIDS continuing education course taken during the 
second or subsequent renewal of registration may be applied to satisfy the general continuing education hours requirement. 

(b) If the initial renewal of a pharmacy technician registration occurs less than 12 months after the initial licensure, then 
completion of courses of a pharmacy technician registration education hours will not be required. 

(c) If the initial renewal of a pharmacy techician registration occurs 12 months or more afier the initial licensure, then 12 hours 
of registered phamacy technician continuing education hours must be completed prior to the renewal date of the license but no 

earlier than the date of initial lic ensure. 
(d) All programs approved by the ACPE for continuing education for pharmacy technicians are deemed approved by the Board 

for general continuing education hours for registered pharmacy technicians. Any course necessary to meet the continuing education 
requirement for HIV/AIDS license renewal shall be Board approved. 

(e) Prior to renewal a licensee must complete, within the 24 month period prior to the expiration date of the license, a two-hour 
continuing education course approved in advance by the Board on medication errors that covers the study of root-cause analysis, 
error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. Hours obtained pursuant to this section may be applied by the licensee to the 

requirements of subsection (1). 

(f) Five hours of continuing education in the subject area of risk management may be obtained by attending one fhll day or eight 
(8) hours of a board meeting at which disciplinary hearings are conducted by the Board of Pharmacy in compliance with the 

following: 
1. The registratrant must sign in with the Executive Director or designee of the Board before the meeting day begins; 
2. The registrant must remain in continuous attendance; 
3. The registrant cannot receive continuing education credit for attendance at a board meeting if required to appear before the 

board; and 
4. The maximum continuing education hours allowable per biennium under this paragraph shall be ten (10). 

(g) At least four (4) of the required 20 hours must be obtained either at a live seminar, a live video teleconference, or through an 

interactive computer-based application. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.033, 465.009 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(7), (9), 456.033, 465.009 FS. History—New 3-19-79, Formerly 21S-6.07, 

Amended 1-7-87, Formerly 21S-6.007, Amended 7-31-91, 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-26.103, 61F10-26.103, Amended 7-1-97, Formerly 59X-26.103, 

Amended 7-11-00, 10-15-0 1, 1-2-02, 1-12-03, 4-12-05, 5-26-09, 5-27-10, 9-20-12. 

64B16-26.1031 Influenza Immunization Certification Program. 
(1) All applications for immunization certification programs shall be made on board approved form DH-MQA 1234, 

"Immunization Certification Program Application", effective 04/10, which is hereby incorporated by reference. To obtain an 
application, contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 or (850) 488-0595, 
or download the application from the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. 



(2) The Board shall approve for initial certification of pharmacist administration of influenza immunizations, programs of study 
not less than 20 hours that include coursework covering all of the following; 

(a) Mechanisms of action for vaccines, contraindications, drug interactions, and monitoring after vaccine administration; 
(b) Immunization Schedules; 

(c) Immunization screening questions, provision of risk/benefit information, informed consent, recordkeeping, and electronic reporting 

into the statewide immunization registry through enrollment application DH Form 1997 (effective 10/07) herein incorporated by reference 
and may be obtained from the Board office by writing to the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 

32399-3254 or by telephoning 1(877)888-7468; 

(d) Vaccine storage and handling; 

(e) Bio-Hazardous waste disposal and sterile techniques; 

(f) Entering, negotiating and performing pursuant to physician oversight protocols; 

(g) Community immunization resources and programs; 

(h) Identifying, managing and responding to adverse incidents including but not limited to potential allergic reactions associated with 

vaccine administration; 

(i) Procedures and policies for reporting adverse events to the Vaccine Adverse Event Reporting System (VAERS); 
(j) Reimbursement procedures and vaccine coverage by federal, state and local governmental jurisdictions and private third party payors; 
(k) Administration techniques; 
(1) The current influenza immunization guidelines and recommendations of the United States Department of Health Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention published in the Morbidity Weekly Report (MMWR) December 1, 2006, Vol. 55 No. RR-15 and updated MMWR 
July 13, 2007, Vol. 56, No. RR-6; 

(m) Review of Section 465.189, F.S.; and 

(n) Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) training. 

Successfttl completion of the certification program must include a successful demonstration of competency in the administration technique 

and a cognitive examination. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.1 89 FS. History—New 3-20-08, Amended 8-30-JO. 

64B16-26.1032 Influenza Immunization Administration Certification Application. 
All applications for immunization certification shall be made on board approved form DH-MQA 1125, "Immunization 
Administration Certification Application," effective February 2010, which is hereby incorporated by reference. To obtain an 
application, contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595, 
or download the application from the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application must be 
accompanied with a non-reftindable application fee as set forth in Rule 64B16-26.100l, F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.189 FS. History—New 9-21-JO. 

64B16-26.104 Exemptions for Members of the Armed Forces; Spouses. 
(1) Any pharmacist or registered pharmacy technician on active duty with the Armed Forces of the United States who at the 

time of becoming a member of the Armed Forces of the United States was in good standing with the Board and was entitled to 

practice the profession of pharmacy or registered as a pharmacy technician in Florida shall be exempt from all license renewal 
provisions so long as the licensee is on active duty with the Armed Forces and for a period of six months after discharge so long as 

the licensee is not engaged in the practice of pharmacy in the private sector for profit. 
(2) A pharmacist or registered pharmacy technician who is a spouse of a member of the Armed Forces of the United States and 

who was caused to be absent from the State of Florida because of the spouse's duties with the Armed Forces shall be exempt from 
all license renewal provisions. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.024 FS. History—New 3-19-79, Amended 4-30-85, Formerly 2JS-6. 09, 21S-6. 009, 

Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 2JS-26.104, 6JFJO-26.J04, 59X-26.104, Amended 1-J1-05, J0-27-09. 

64B16-26.105 Consultant Pharmacists Initial Registration Fee and Renewal Fee. 



Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.008, 465.0125 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 465.0125 FS. History—New 10-26-83, Amended 2-21-84, 
Formerly 21S-6.10, 21S-6.010, 21S-26.105, 61F10-26.105, Amended 3-28-95, Formerly 59X-26.105, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.106 Nuclear Pharmacists Initial Registration Fee and Renewal Fee 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 465.0126 FS. History—New 12-29-88, Formerly 21S-6.011, 21S-26.106, 

61F10-26.106, Amended 6-26-95, 3-11-96, Formerly 59X-26.106, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.107 Inactive Nuclear Pharmacist License Renewal. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.008, 465.012, 465.022(8) FS. Law Implemented 465.008, 465.012, 465.022(8) FS. History—New 6-26-95, 

Formerly 59X-26.107, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.200 Examination Requirements. 
The examination provided in Section 465.007, F.S., shall be as follows: 

(1) Part A North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX). 
(2) Part B Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination Florida Version. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.01 7, 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.017 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Amended 2-8-81, 6-22-82, 8-16-84, 4-30-85, 

Formerly 21S-12.01, Amended 5-6-86, Formerly 21S-12.001, Amended 1-10-93, Formerly 21S-26.200, 61F10-26.200, Amended 7-1-97, Formerly 

59X-26.200, Amended 3-22-99, 1-11-05. 

64B16-26.201 Reexamination. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.017, 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.017 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Amended 2-8-81, 11-27-84, 4-30-85, Formerly 
21S-12.02, Amended 5-6-86, Formerly 21S-12.002, 21S-26.201, 61F10-26.201, 59X-26.201, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.202 Examination Review Procedure. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.017(2) FS. Law Implemented 456.01 7(2) FS. History—New 10-1 7-79, Amended 12-27-82, Formerly 21S-12. 03, Amended 
12-24-89, Formerly 21S-12.003, 21S-26.202, 61F10-26.202, 59X-26.202, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.203 Licensure by Examination; Application. 
Applicants who are at least 18 years of age and a recipient of a degree from a school or college of pharmacy accredited by an 
accrediting agency recognized and approved by the United States Office of Education may apply to take the licensure examination. 

(1) All applications for lic ensure by examination must be made on board approved form DOH/MQA/l 01, Pharmacist 
Examination Application for U.S. and Puerto Rico Graduates and Instructions, (Rev 9/09), which is hereby incorporated by 
reference, and which can be obtained from the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399- 
3254, or (850)488-0595 to request an application or download the application from the board's website at 

http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application must be accompanied with a non-refundable examination fee and an 
initial license fee as set forth in Rules 64Bl6-26.lOOl and 64Bl6-26.1002, F.A.C. 

(2) The applicant must submit proof of having met the following requirements: 
(a) Completion of an internship program provided by either an accredited school or college of pharmacy or a state board of 

pharmacy or jointly by both provided that the program meets requirements of Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 
(b) Completion of a board approved course not less than 2 hours on medication errors that covers the study of root-cause 

analysis, error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. For those applicants who apply within one year following receipt of their 
pharmacy degree, completed academic course work on medication errors will be accepted by the Board as an educational course 
under this section, provided such course work is no less than 2 contact hours and that it covers the study of root-cause analysis, error 
reduction and prevention, and patient safety, as evidenced by a letter attesting to subject matter covered from the Dean of the 
University. 

(3) An applicant must reapply if all requirements for licensure are not met within one year of the receipt of the application. 
(4) Passing examination scores may be used upon reapplication only if the examination was completed within 3 years of the 

reapplication. 



Rulemaking Authority 456.033, 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(1), (7), 456.025(3), 456.033, 465.007, 465.022 FS. History—New 10-17-79, 

Formerly 21S-12.04, 21S-12.004, Amended 7-31-91, 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-26.203, 61F10-26.203, Amended 7-1-97, Formerly 59X-26.203, 

Amended 8-17-99, 10-15-01, 1-2-02, 1-12-03, 1-11-05, 2-18-08, 5-26-09, 5-11-10. 

64B16-26.2031 Licensure by Examination; Foreign Pharmacy Graduates. 
In order for a foreign pharmacy graduate to be admitted to the professional licensure examination, the applicant must be a graduate 
of a four year undergraduate pharmacy program at a school or college outside the United States and have completed an internship 
program approved by the Board. 

(1) All applications for licensure by examination must be made on form DH-MQA 103 (Rev. 09/09), Pharmacist Examination 
Application For Foreign Graduates and Instructions, which is hereby incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy, 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595 to request an application or download the 

application from the Board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application must be accompanied with a non- 
refundable examination fee and an initial license fee set forth in Rules 64B16-26.1001 and 64B16-26.1002, F.A.C. 

(a) For applications received at the Board of Pharmacy on or before June 30, 2009, the applicant must: 
1. Successfully pass the foreign pharmacy graduate equivalency examination which is given by the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate 

Equivalency Commission with a minimum score of 75%. 

2. Demonstrate proficiency in the use of English by passing the Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL), which is 

administered by the Educational Testing Service, Inc., with a score of at least 500 for the pencil and paper test or 173 for the 
computer version and by passing the Test of Spoken English (TSE) with a score of 45 on the recalibrated TSE; or 

3. Demonstrate proficiency in the use of English by passing the Test of English as a Foreign Language Internet-based test 
(TOEFL ibt) with scores of: Listening 18; Reading —21; Speaking —26; and Writing —24. 

(b) For applications received at the Board of Pharmacy on or after July 1, 2009, the applicant must: 
1. Successfully pass the foreign pharmacy graduate equivalency examination which is given by the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate 

Equivalency Commission with a minimum score of 75%; 
2. Demonstrate proficiency in the use of English by passing the Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL), which is 

administered by the Educational Testing Service, Inc., with a score of at least 550 for the pencil and paper test or 213 for the 
computer version and by passing the Test of Spoken English (TSE) with a score of 50 on the recalibrated TSE; or 

3. Demonstrate proficiency in the use of English by passing the Test of English as a Foreign Language Internet-based test 
(TOEFL ibt) with scores of: Listening 18; Reading —21; Speaking —26; and Writing —24. 

(2) Complete 2080 hours of supervised work activity, of which a minimum of 500 hours must be completed within the State of 
Florida. Such experience must be equivalent to that required in the internship program as set forth in Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 
The work experience program including both the preceptor and the permittee must be approved by the Board of Pharmacy. The 
work experience shall be documented on form DH-MQA 1153 (Rev. 0 1/10), Foreign Graduate Intern Work Activity Manual, which 
is hereby incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 
32399-3254 or (850)488-0595 to request a manual or download the manual from the Board's website at 
http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. Further, no program of supervised work activity shall be approved for any applicant until 
said applicant has obtained the specified passing scores on the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency Examination. 

(3) Completion of a Board approved course not less than 2 hours on medication errors that covers the study of root-cause 
analysis, error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. For applicants who apply within one year following receipt of their 
pharmacy degree, completed academic course work on medication errors will be accepted by the Board as an educational course 
under this section, provided such course work is no less than 2 contact hours and that it covers the study of root-cause analysis, error 
reduction and prevention, and patient safety as evidence by a letter attesting to subject matter covered from the Dean of the 

University. 

RulemakingAuthorily 465.005, 465.OO7FS. Law Implemented 465.OO7FS. History—New 1-11-05, Amended 8-8-0 7, 6-10-09, 5-2 7-1 0. 

64B16-26.2032 Pharmacy Intern Registration Internship Requirements (U.S. Pharmacy Students/Graduates). 
A U.S. pharmacy student or graduate is required to be registered with the Department of Health as an intern before being employed 
as an intern in a pharmacy in Florida. 



(1) All applications for registration must be made on form DH-MQA 104, Pharmacy Intern Application for U.S. Pharmacy 
Students/Graduates and Instructions, (Rev. 09/09), which is hereby incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 
Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595 to request an application or download the 
application from the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. 

(2) An applicant for pharmacy intern registration must submit proof of: 

(a) Enrollment in an intern program at a college or school of pharmacy accredited by the Accreditation Council of 
Pharmaceutical Education (ACPE); or 

(b) Graduation from a college or school of pharmacy accredited by the ACPE. 
(3) Upon the receipt of proof satisfactory to the Board that the intern applicant meets the requirement of either paragraph (2)(a) 

or (2)(b), unless there exists good cause for the Board's refusal to certify an applicant as set forth in Section 465 .013, F.S., the Board 
shall certify the applicant to the Department for registration as an intern. 

(4) No intern shall perform any acts relating to the filing, compounding, or dispensing of medicinal drugs unless it is done under 
the direct and immediate personal supervision of a person actively licensed to practice pharmacy in this state. 

(5) All internship experience for the purpose of qualifying for the examination pursuant to Section 465.007(1)(c), F.S., shall be 
obtained in a community pharmacy, institutional pharmacy or any Florida Board of Pharmacy approved pharmacy practice, which 
includes significant aspects of the practice of pharmacy as defined in Section 465.003(13), F.S. 

(6) An internship program at college or school of pharmacy accredited by the ACPE shall assure that community or institutional 
pharmacies utilized for the obtaining of internship experience meet the following minimum requirements: 

(a) The pharmacy shall hold a current license or permit issued by the state in which they are operating and shall have available 
all necessary equipment for professional services, necessary reference works, in addition to the official standards and current 
professional journals. 

(b) The pharmacy shall be operated at all times under the supervision of a pharmacist and shall be willing to train persons 
desiring to obtain professional experience. 

(c) The pharmacy shall establish to the program's satisfaction that the pharmacy fills, compounds and dispenses a sufficient 
number, kind and variety of prescriptions during the course of a year so as to afford to an intern a broad experience in the filling, 

compounding and dispensing of prescription drugs. 
(d) The pharmacy shall have a clear record as to observance of federal, state and municipal laws and ordinances covering any 

phase of activity in which it is engaged. 
(7) The program shall assure that all preceptors meet the following requirements: 
(a) The pharmacist shall willingly accept the responsibility for professional guidance and training of the intern and be able to 

devote time to preceptor training sessions and to instruction of the intern. 

(b) The pharmacist shall hold current licensure in the state in which pharmacy is practiced. 
(c) The pharmacist shall be ineligible to serve as a preceptor during any period in which the pharmacist's license to practice 

pharmacy is revoked, suspended, on probation, or subject to payment of an unpaid fine levied by lawfttl Board order, or during any 
period in which the pharmacist's license is the subject of ongoing disciplinary proceedings. 

(d) The pharmacist shall agree to assist the school or college of pharmacy in the achievement of the educational objectives set 
forth and to provide a professional environment for the training of the intern. 

(e) Evidence shall be provided of the pharmacist's desire to continue broadening professional education and of an active 
involvement in a patient-oriented practice. 

(8) In the event a program meets all the requirements set forth in subsection (6) of this rule, except for prior approval by the 
Florida Board of Pharmacy, any applicant submitting it for the purpose of qualifying for licensure by examination must show in 

addition to successfhl completion of the internship: 
(a) Approval of the program by a state board of pharmacy; and 
(b) Sufficient hours to total 2080 hours; or 
(c) Licensure in another state and work performed as a pharmacist for a sufficient number of hours to total 2080 hours when 

combined with the internship hours. 
(9) All internship hours may be obtained prior to the applicant's graduation. 



(10) Proof of completion of an internship program shall consist of a certification that the applicant has completed the program. 
If additional hours are required to total 2080 hours, satisfactory proof of the additional hours shall be constituted by the program's 
certification of completion of the additional hours. 

(11) Hours worked in excess of 50 hours per week prior to the applicant's graduation or in excess of 60 hours per week after an 
applicant's graduation, will not be credited toward meeting the required internship hours. 

(12) The Board approves all internships that are required to obtain the doctor of pharmacy degree from institutions which are 

accredited as provided by Section 465.007(1)(b)1., F.S. Applicants graduating after January 1, 2001 with the doctor of pharmacy 
degree from such institutions shall be deemed to have met the requirements of this section with documentation of graduation. 

(13) The Board may conduct periodic review of programs to assure compliance with these rules. 
(14) Proof of current licensure in another state and work as a pharmacist for up to 2080 hours may substitute for all or part of 

the internship requirement. 
(15) Governmental and private radiopharmacy internship programs shall not apply to the pharmacy internship required under 

subsection (5) of this rule. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented (12), 465.007, 465.0075, 465.013 FS. History—New 4-1-07, Amended 7-7-10, 10-7- 

12. 

64B16-26.2033 Pharmacy Intern Registration and Internship Requirements (Foreign Pharmacy Graduates). 
A foreign pharmacy graduate is required to be registered with the Department of Health as an intern before being employed as an 
intern in a pharmacy in Florida. 

(1) All applicants for intern registration must be made on form DH-MQA 102, "Pharmacy Intern Application for Foreign 
Graduates and Instructions," effective September 2009, which is incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 
Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254 or (850) 488-0595 to request a form or download the form from the 
board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. 

(2) An applicant for foreign pharmacy graduate intern registration in Florida must submit proof of: 

(a) Eligibility by the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency Committee to sit for the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate 
Equivalency Examination, or 

(b) A passing score on the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency Examination to be considered a graduate of an accredited 
college or school of pharmacy. 

(3) Upon the receipt of proof satisfactory to the Board that the intern applicant meets the requirements of either paragraph (a) or 
(b) of subsection (1), and submitted a completed application as required in subsection (2) unless there exists good cause for the 
Board's reftisal to certify an applicant as set forth in Section 465.013, F.S., the Board shall certify the applicant to the Department 
for registration as an intern. 

(4) No intern shall perform any acts relating to the filling, compounding, or dispensing of medicinal drugs unless it is done 
under the direct and immediate personal supervision of a person actively licensed to practice pharmacy in this state. 

(5) All internship experience for the purpose of qualifying for the examination pursuant to Section 465.007(1)(c), F.S., shall be 
obtained in a community pharmacy, institutional pharmacy or any Florida Board of Pharmacy approved pharmacy practice, which 
includes significant aspects of the practice of pharmacy as defined in Section 465.003(13), F.S. 

(6) An internship program at an accredited college or school of pharmacy shall assure that community or institutional 
pharmacies utilized for the obtaining of internship experience meet the following minimum requirements: 

(a) The pharmacy shall hold a current license or permit issued by the state in which they are operating and shall have available 
all necessary equipment for professional services, necessary reference works, in addition to the official standards and current 
professional journals. 

(b) The pharmacy shall be operated at all times under the supervision of a pharmacist and shall be willing to train persons 
desiring to obtain professional experience. 

(c) The pharmacy shall establish to the program's satisfaction that the pharmacy fills, compounds and dispenses a sufficient 
number, kind and variety of prescriptions during the course of a year so as to afford to an intern a broad experience in the filling, 
compounding and dispensing of prescription drugs. 

(d) The pharmacy shall have a clear record as to observance of federal, state and municipal laws and ordinances covering any 
phase of activity in which it is engaged. 



(e) No pharmacist may be responsible for the supervision of more than one intern at any one time. 
(7) The program shall assure that all preceptors meet the following requirements: 
(a) The pharmacist shall willingly accept the responsibility for professional guidance and training of the intern and be able to 

devote time to preceptor training sessions and to instruction of the intern. 

(b) The pharmacist shall hold current licensure in the state in which pharmacy is practiced. 
(c) The pharmacist shall be ineligible to serve as a preceptor during any period in which the pharmacist's license to practice 

pharmacy is revoked, suspended, on probation, or subject to payment of an unpaid fine levied by lawfhl Board order, or during any 
period in which the pharmacist's license is the subject of ongoing disciplinary proceedings. 

(d) The pharmacist shall agree to assist the school or college of pharmacy in the achievement of the educational objectives set 
forth and to provide a professional environment for the training of the intern. 

(e) Evidence shall be provided of the pharmacist's desire to continue broadening professional education and of an active 
involvement in a patient-oriented practice. 

(8) In the event a program meets all the requirements set forth in subsection (2) of this rule, except for prior approval by the 
Florida Board of Pharmacy, any applicant submitting it for the purpose of qualifying for licensure by examination must show in 

addition to successfttl completion of the internship: 
(a) Approval of the program by a state board of pharmacy; and 
(b) Sufficient hours to total 1580 hours; or 
(c) Licensure in another state and work performed as a pharmacist for a sufficient number of hours to total 1580 hours when 

combined with the internship hours. 
(9) All internship hours may be obtained prior to the applicant's graduation. 
(10) Proof of completion of an internship program shall consist of a certification that the applicant has completed the program. 

If additional hours are required to total 2080 hours, satisfactory proof of the additional hours shall be constituted by the program's 
certification of completion of the additional hours. 

(11) Hours worked in excess of 50 hours per week prior to the applicant's graduation or in excess of 60 hours per week after an 
applicant's graduation, will not be credited toward meeting the required internship hours. 

(12) The Board approves all internships that are required to obtain the doctor of pharmacy degree from institutions which are 

accredited as provided by Section 465.007(l)(b)1., F.S. Applicants graduating after January 1, 2001 with the doctor of pharmacy 
degree from such institutions shall be deemed to have met the requirements of this section with documentation of graduation. 

(13) The Board may conduct periodic review of programs to assure compliance with these rules. 
(14) Proof of current licensure in another state and work as a pharmacist for up to 1580 hours may substitute for all or part of 

the internship hours requirement. 
(15) Governmental and private radiopharmacy internship programs shall not apply to the pharmacy internship required under 

subsection (1) of this rule. 

(16) All foreign pharmacy graduates must complete 500 hours of supervised work activity within the state of Florida as 

provided by Section 465.007(1)(b)2., F.S. The supervised work activity program experience shall be documented on form DH-MQA 
1153, "Foreign Graduate Registered Intern Work Activity Manual," effective 01/10. Contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254 or (850)488-0595 to request a form or download the form from the 
board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. Further, this 500 hours of work activity program shall not be 
recognized for any applicant until said applicant has obtained the passing score on the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency 
Exam as provided in Section 465.007, F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 'S. Law Implemented 1), 465.002, 465.007, 465.0075, 465.013 FS. History—New 5-2 7-10. 

64B16-26.2035 Examination Fees. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.007 FS. History—New 9-19-94, Amended 3-10-96, Formerly 59X-26.2035, Amended 3- 

22-99, 1 0-30-00, Repealed 3-10-05 



64B16-26.204 Licensure by Endorsement. 
An applicant for licensure by endorsement must be at least 18 years of age and a recipient of a degree from a school or college of 
pharmacy accredited by an accrediting agency recognized and approved by the United States Office of Education. 

(1) All applications for licensure by endorsement shall be made on board approved form DOH/MQA100 effective June 2010. 
Pharmacist Licensure by Endorsement Application and Instructions (U.S. and territories), which is hereby incorporated by reference, 
can be obtained from the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254, or (850) 488- 
0595 to request a form or download the form from the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application 
must be accompanied with a non-refundable application fee and initial licensure fee as set forth in Rules 64B16-26.l001 and 64B16- 
26.1002, F.A.C. 

(2) The applicant must submit satisfactory proof that one of the following requirements has been met: 

(a) Two (2) years of active practice, as defined in Section 465.0075(l)(c), F.S., within the immediately preceding five (5) years. 
If the applicant meets the requirements of this section, proof of completion of 30 hours of Florida Board of Pharmacy, ACPE, or 

other state board of pharmacy approved continuing education obtained in the two calendar years immediately preceding application, 
must also be submitted. 

(b) Successful completion of an internship meeting the requirements of Section 465.007(l)(c), F.S., within the immediately 
preceding two (2) years. 

(3) Completion of a Board approved course not less than 2 hours on medication errors that covers the study of root-cause 
analysis, error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. For applicants who apply within one year following receipt of their 
pharmacy degree, completed academic course work on medication errors will be accepted by the Board as an educational course 
under this section, provided such course work is no less than 2 contact hours and that it covers the study of root-cause analysis, error 
reduction and prevention, and patient safety as evidenced by a letter attesting to subject matter covered from an official of the 
university where the course was taken. 

(4) Applicants qualifying under the education requirements of Section 465.007(1)(b)2., F.S., (foreign graduates), must complete 
the requirements of Rule 64B16-26.2031, F.A.C., prior to certification for the examination required in subsection (6) of this rule. 

(5) All requirements for licensure by endorsement must be met within one (1) year of the receipt of the application. Applicants 
failing to meet this requirement must reapply. 

(6) Applicants applying under the provisions of Section 465.0075, F.S., must have obtained a passing score on the licensure 
examination as described in subsection 64B16-26.200(1), F.A.C. 

(7) Applicants applying under the provisions of Section 465.0075, F.S., shall cause the National Association of Boards of 
Pharmacy, or other similar organization to issue a Transfer of Pharmaceutical Licensure certificate showing examination date, 
examination results, states of licensure, disciplinary actions, and licensure status. 

(8) Applicants deemed qualified for licensure by endorsement shall be required to complete the Multistate Pharmacy 
Jurisprudence Examination Florida Version. Passing scores on this examination may be used upon reapplication only if the 
examination was completed within three (3) years of the reapplication. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0075 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(1), 465.00 7, 465.0075, 465.022 FS. History—New 11-8 -01, Amended 1-11- 

05, 2-18-08, 5-26-09, 10-10-10. 

64B16-26.205 Requirements for Foreign Pharmacy Graduates to Be Admitted to the Pharmacist Licensure Examination. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.007 FS. Law Implemented 465.007 FS. History—New 4-18-84, Formerly 21S-12.06, Amended 9-1 7-87, 

Formerly 21S-12.006, Amended 7-31-91, 1-10-93, 4-8-93, Formerly 21S-26.205, 61F10-26.205, Amended 3-10-96, Formerly 59X-26.205, 

Amended 8-17-99, Repealed 3-10-05. 



64B16-26.300 Consultant Pharmacist Licensure. 
(1) No person shall serve as consultant pharmacist as defined in Section 465.003(3), F.S., unless that person holds a license as a 

consultant pharmacist. 
(2) Application for consultant pharmacist licensure shall be made on form DOH-MQA 1109, 02/09, Consultant Pharmacist 

Application and Information, which is hereby incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald Cypress Way, 
Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595 to request an application or download the application from the 
board's website at www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application shall be accompanied by a non-refhndable application fee. 

(3) In order to be licensed as a consultant pharmacist, a person must meet the following requirements: 
(a) Hold a license as a pharmacist which is active and in good standing, 
(b) Successfully complete a consultant pharmacist course of no fewer than twelve (12) hours, sponsored by an accredited 

college of pharmacy located within the State of Florida, and approved by the Florida Board of Pharmacy Tripartite Continuing 
Education Committee which is based on the Statement of the Competencies Required in Institutional Pharmacy Practice and subject 
matter set forth in Rule 64B16-26.301, F.A.C. The course shall be instructionally designed to include a cognitive test on which the 
applicant must score a passing grade for certification of successftil completion of the course. 

(c) Successfully complete a period of assessment and evaluation under the supervision of a preceptor within one (1) year of 
completion of the course set forth in paragraph (b) above. This period of assessment and evaluation shall be completed over no more 
than three (3) consecutive months and shall include at least 40 hours of training in the following practice areas, 60% of which shall 
occur on-site at an institution that holds a pharmacy permit. The training shall include: 

Minimum Skills Required Percent of Time Hours 
Minimum of 40 Hours in Maximum of Three Months 
1. Regimen review, documentation and 60% 24 

communication. 
a. Demonstrate ability to carry out process 
and understand documentation functions. 
b. Understand and perform drug regimen 
review. Communicate findings to 

appropriate individuals or groups. 
c. The applicant is responsible for 
learning other skills needed to perform in his/her 
type of facility where he/she is or will be the 
consultant Pharmacist of Record. 
2. Facility review. 20% 8 

Demonstrate areas that should be evaluated, 
documentation, and reporting procedures. 
3. Committee and Reports. 5% 2 

Review quarterly Quality of Care Committee 
minutes and preparation and delivery of pharmacist 
quarterly report. 
4. Policy and Procedures. 5% 2 

Preparation, review, updating Policy 
and Methods. 
5. Principles of formulary management. 5% 2 

Demonstrate ability to manage formulary. 
6. Professional Relationships. 5% 2 

Knowledge and interaction of facility 
administration and professional staff 

(4) In order to act as a preceptor, a person shall: 

(a) Be a consultant pharmacist of record at an institutional pharmacy which is required to have a consultant pharmacist under 



the provisions of Chapter 465, F.S., and these rules. 
(b) Have a minimum of one (1) year of experience as a consultant pharmacist of record. 
(c) Maintain all pharmacist licenses in good standing with the Board. 
(d) Not act as a preceptor to more than two (2) applicants at the same time. 
(5) Upon completion of the requirements set forth above, the applicant's preceptor shall confirm that the applicant's assessment 

and evaluation have met the requirements and that the applicant has successfhlly completed all required assignments under the 
preceptor's guidance and supervision. 

(6) After licensure a consultant pharmacist's license shall be renewed biennially upon payment of the fee set forth in Rule 
64Bl6-26.1003, F.A.C., and upon completing twenty-four (24) hours of board approved continuing education based upon the 

provisions of Rule 64Bl6-26.302, F.A.C. 
(7) The number of hours earned in recertification programs by a consultant pharmacist, if applied to the twenty-four (24) hours 

required for consultant pharmacist license renewal, may not be used toward the thirty (30) hours of continued professional 
pharmaceutical education credits as set forth in Rule 64B16-26.103, F.A.C. 

(8) An applicant who applies for a consultant pharmacist license after the effective date of this rule shall be required to complete 
the assessment and evaluation required in paragraph (3)(c) prior to being licensed as a consultant pharmacist. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125 FS. Law Implemented 465.0125 FS. History—New 5-19-72, Revised 4-19-74, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Amended 10-17-79, 4-8-80, 7-29-81, 7-1-83, 4-10-84, 4-30-85, Formerly 21S-1.26, 21S-1.026, Amended 7-31-91, 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-26.300, 

61F10-26.300, Amended 9-19-94, 3-28-95, 3-10-96, Formerly 59X-26.300, Amended 5-22-01, 5-5-05, 11-29-06, 3-29-10. 

64B16-26.301 Subject Matter for Consultant Pharmacist Training Program. 
(1) Jurisprudence. 
(a) Laws and regulations, state and federal, pertaining to institutional pharmacy and health care facilities. 
(b) Laws and regulations, state and federal, pertaining to the safe and controlled storage of alcohol and other related substances, 

and relating to fire and health-hazard control. 
(2) Policy and Procedures. 
(a) Written procedures for outlining the medication system in effect. 

1. Traditional systems. 
2. Unit-dose systems. 
a. Centralized. 
b. Decentralized. 
c. Automated medication systems. 
3. Routine and emergency use of drugs. 
4. After hours procedure for medication dispensing. 
S. Managing drug shortages. 
(b) Record keeping and reports. 
1. Controlled substance control and record-of-usage. 
2. Alcohol inventory and record-of-usage. 
3. Patient drug use control and records. 
a. Recalls. 
b. Medication use evaluation. 
c. Medication errors. 
4. Drug charges, methods, accountability, and reports. 
5. Statistical reports of usage, volume, etc. 

(3) Administrative Responsibilities. 
(a) Fiscal Control. 
1. Perpetual and traditional inventory systems. 
2. Application of EDP techniques. 
(b) Personnel Management, orientation and training. 
(c) Intra-professional relations pertaining to medication use. 



(d) Inter-professional relations with other members of the institutional health care team. 
1. Pharmacy & Therapeutic Committee. 
a. Rational drug therapy; review of medication use and prescribing. 
b. Formulary development evaluation, appraisal, selection, procurement, storage, distribution, medication safety, criteria for 

use development and safety. 
c. Automatic stop orders on potent and dangerous drugs. 
d. Controls on storage and use of investigational drugs. 
2. In-service education of nurses and other health-related personnel. 
3. Infectious Disease Committee. 
(4) Professional Responsibilities. 
(a) Drug information retrieval and methods of dispersal. 
(b) Development of pharmacy practice. 
(c) Development of an IV Admixture service. 
(d) Procedures to enhance medication safety. 
1. Availability of equipment, technique, etc., to prepare special dosage forms for pediatric and geriatric patients. 
2. Preparation of sterile dosage forms. 
3. Proper writing, transcribing and initiating and/or transferring patient medication orders; development of physician's chart 

order copy system. 
4. Safety of patient self-medication and control of drugs at bedside. 
5. Reporting and trending adverse drug reactions. 
6. Screening for potential drug interactions. 
7. Development and maintenance of up-to-date emergency kits. 
(e) Maintain drug quality and safe storage. 
1. Procedures for eliminating out-dated drugs. 
2. Requirements for safe and appropriate storage conditions. 
(f) Maintain drug identity. 
1. Procedures for labeling, transferring of bulk medications, etc. 

2. Manufacturing and packaging procedures. 
3. Pre-packaging control and supervision. 
(5) The Institutional Environment. 
(a) The institution's pharmacy ffinction and purpose. 
(b) Interdepartmental relationships important to the institutional pharmacy. 
(c) Understanding of scope of service and in-patient care mission of the institution. 
(d) Special training with respect to the operation of nursing homes and Extended Care Facilities (ECF)/pharmacy relationship 

and special procurement procedures. 
(6) Nuclear pharmacy. 
(a) Procurement. 
(b) Compounding. 
(c) Quality control procedures. 
(d) Dispensing. 
(e) Distribution. 
(f) Basic radiation protection and practices. 

(g) Consultation and education to the nuclear medicine community; including patients, pharmacists, other health professionals, 
and the general public. 

(h) Research and development of new formulations. 
(i) Record keeping. 
(j) Reporting adverse drug reactions and medication errors. 
(k) Screening for potential drug interaction. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125 FS. Law Implemented 465.0125 FS. History—New 5-19-72, Amended 12-18-74, 10-17-79, Formerly 21S- 



1.27, 21S-1.027, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-26.301, 61F10-26.301, 59X-26.301, Amended 5-5-05. 

64B16-26.302 Subject Matter for Consultant Pharmacist Licensure Renewal Continuing Education. 
A Consultant Pharmacist License Renewal Continuing Education Program must contain at least three (3) hours of training in any of 
the subjects specified below. Duplicate courses are not acceptable. 

(1) Drug Therapy Disease State. Patient Drug Therapy management and monitoring. 
(a) Drug, Disease State Information In-depth disclosure of the drug or therapeutic class of drugs or disease state including 

pharmacology, side effects and interaction. 
(b) New Therapeutic Modalities: Expansion of current drug therapy or treatment. 
(c) Patient Assessment: Assessment techniques by consultant pharmacist to determine the need and effectiveness of indicated 

drug therapy along with identification and assessment of side effects on patient's well-being. 
(d) Pertinent Laboratory Tests. 
(e) Therapeutic Dosing. 
(2) Administrative Responsibilities. 
(a) Update on Administrative Responsibilities. 
1. Legal requirements including statutes, rules and regulation (Federal and State). 
2. The Joint Commission on the Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations. 
3. Personnel requirements. 
4. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability. 
(b) Focus on Consultant Pharmacist Practice Issues/Concerns. 
1. How to get things accomplished in complex organizations. 
2. Key contacts to be effective as a consultant pharmacist. 
3. Considerations and preparation for site inspections. 
(3) Consultant Pharmacist Facility Responsibilities. This segment details the requirements in one of the facility types for which 

a consultant pharmacist is required. Only one practice setting may be included in each program. 
(a) Pharmacist-Medication Responsibilities Assessment mechanism for delivery system, review procedures and monitoring 

processes. 
(b) Pharmacist-Patient Responsibilities Patient assessment, laboratory test monitoring and therapeutic dosing. 
(c) Committee Responsibilities Make-up and responsibilities for various facility committees. 
(d) Reporting requirements. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125 FS. Law Implemented 465.0125 'S. History—New 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-26.302, 61F1 0-26.3 02, 59X- 

26.302, Amended 5-5-05, 7-21-09. 

64B16-26.303 Nuclear Pharmacist Licensure. 
(1) A pharmacist licensed to practice pharmacy in this state who performs a radiopharmaceutical service shall, prior to engaging 

in such specialized practice, be actively licensed as a nuclear pharmacist. 
(2) A pharmacist seeking licensure as a nuclear pharmacist in this state shall submit to the Board of Pharmacy a course outline 

from an accredited college of pharmacy or other program recognized by the Florida Department of Health and the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy (a program comparable to those offered by accredited colleges of pharmacy for the training of nuclear pharmacists), and a 

certificate of training which provides a minimum of 200 clock hours of formal didactic training, which includes: 
(a) Radiation physics and instrumentation (85 hours). 
(b) Radiation protection (45 hours). 
(c) Mathematics pertaining to the use and measurement of radioactivity (20 hours). 
(d) Radiation biology (20 hours). 

(e) Radiopharmaceutical chemistry (30 hours). 
(3) Such academic training programs will be submitted to the Board of Pharmacy for approval by an accredited educational 

institution which operates under the auspices of or in conjunction with an accredited college of pharmacy. 
(4) The minimum on-the-job training which shall be included in a radiopharmacy internship is 500 hours of training and 

experience in the handling of unsealed radioactive material under the supervision of a licensed nuclear pharmacist. The training and 



experience shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 
(a) Ordering, receiving and unpackaging in a safe manner, radioactive material, including the performance of related radiation 

surveys. 
(b) Calibrating dose calibrators, scintillation detectors, and radiation monitoring equipment. 
(c) Calculating, preparing and verifying patient doses, including the proper use of radiation shields. 
(d) Following appropriate internal control procedures to prevent mislabeling. 
(e) Learning emergency procedures to safely handle and contain spilled materials, including related decontamination procedures 

and surveys. 
(f) Eluting technetium-99m from generator systems, assaying the eluate for technetium-99m and for molybdenum-99 

contamination, and processing the eluate with reagent kits to prepare technetium-99m labeled radiopharmaceuticals. 
(g) Clinical practice concepts. 
(5) If the didactic and experiential training required in this section have not been completed within the last seven (7) years, the 

applicant must have been engaged in the lawful practice of nuclear pharmacy in another jurisdiction at least 1080 hours during the 
last seven (7) years. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 465.0126 FS. History—New 1-18-05. 

64B16-26.304 Subject Matter for Nuclear Pharmacist License Renewal Continuing Education Programs. 
(1) A licensee completing the continuing education requirement for nuclear pharmacist license renewal pursuant to Rule 64B 16- 

26.103, F.A.C., shall complete twenty-four (24) additional hours per biennium of coursework each two year period by or through a 

Committee approved provider, instructionally designed to provide in-depth treatment of nuclear pharmacy practice with suggested 
subject matter set out in subsection (2) of this rule. 

(2) Content of nuclear pharmacist continuing education program. 
(a) Application of radiopharmaceutical theory in a practice or a research setting with respect to the drug products and their 

clinical application. Provision of drug and radiopharmaceutical information as it pertains to optimal handling and use of these 
products in a clinical setting. 

(b) Effective communication skills in a multi-disciplinary environment with patients, nuclear medicine physicians, nuclear 
medicine technologists, radiation safety personnel and other nuclear pharmacists. The multi-faceted regulatory environment requires 
such skills in the preparation and maintenance of a radioactive by-product materials license, the identification and reporting of 
adverse reactions and misadministration, instances of poor product performance, environmental and personnel radiation safety. 

(c) Application of the most rigorous and up-to-date principles of radiation safety and quality assurance in order to assure 
regulatory compendia, and operational standards for drug and radiopharmaceutical products and equipment. Record-keeping and 
other documentation activities essential to procurement, storage, compounding, handling and use, distribution and disposal should be 
emphasized. 

(d) Management of a nuclear pharmacy unit in accordance with regulatory and administrative agencies' requirements. 
(e) Advances in drug, radiopharmaceutical or related technology (including, but not limited to: monoclonal antibodies, magnetic 

resonance imaging, computed tomography, positron-emission tomography, radioplaque and other contact enhancement agents, 
radioimmunoassay) with emphasis on paragraphs (a)-(d) above for such new agents. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 465.0126 FS. History—New 1-18-05. 

64B16-26.320 Subject Matter for Continuing Education to Order and Evaluate Laboratory Tests. 
(1) Consultant pharmacists and pharmacists holding the Doctor of Pharmacy degree that wish to order and evaluate laboratory 

tests under the provisions of Section 465.0125, F.S., shall successfully complete the requirements of a continuing education course 
set forth herein prior to such practice. Successful completion of the course will the pharmacist for this practice for two (2) 
years from date of completion. 

(2) Providers of courses seeking approval under this section shall meet the procedures and standards provided for in Rule 
64B16-26.601, F.A.C. Courses approved under this section shall be at least three (3) hours in duration for initial certification and at 

least one (1) hour for recertification, and shall cover the following subjects: 
(a) Requirements for monitoring laboratory values, 
(b) Interpretation of laboratory values, 



(c) Use of laboratory data to monitor and improve drug therapy, 
(d) Legal aspects, restrictions, and requirements for obtaining laboratory studies, 
(e) Use of laboratory data and therapeutic outcomes, 
(f) Documentation of interventions, and 
(g) Laboratory studies as an element of complete patient care. 

(3) A consultant pharmacist may apply the three (3) hour initial certification course and the one (1) hour recertification course 
toward the continuing education requirement for renewal of a consultant pharmacist license under Rule 64B 16-26.300, F.A.C., or 
may apply such continuing education hours toward the continuing education requirement for renewal of a pharmacist license under 
Rule 64Bl6-26.l03, F.A.C., but may not use the same continuing education hours to both requirements. A Doctor of 
Pharmacy who is not a consultant pharmacist may apply the three (3) hour initial certification course and the one (1) hour 
recertification course toward the continuing education requirement for renewal of a pharmacist license under Rule 64Bl6-26. 103, 

F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.009, 465.0125(3) FS. Law Implemented 465.009, 465.0125(2) FS. History—New 2-23-98, Amended 6-15-98, 1-12-03, 3- 

1 0-05. 

64B16-26.350 Requirements for Pharmacy Technician Registration. 
Applicants who are at least 17 years of age may apply to become a registered pharmacy technician. 

(1) All applicants for registration must be made on form DH-MQA PH1 183, "Pharmacy Technician Registration Application 
and Instructions" effective September 2009, which is incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595 to request an application or download the application from 
the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application must be accompanied with a non-refundable 
application fee and an initial registration fee set forth in Rules 64B16-26.lOOl and 64Bl6-26.1002, F.A.C. 

(2) Prior to January 1, 2011, a registered pharmacy technician must submit proof of having met one of the following 
requirements: 

(a) Completed a Board approved training course as outlined in Rule 64B16-26.351, F.A.C; or 
(b) Worked as a registered pharmacy technician for a minimum of 1500 hours under the supervision of a pharmacist; or 
(c) Received certification as a pharmacy technician by a certification program accredited by the National Commission for 

Certifying Agencies. 
(3) Applicants applying for registration after January 1, 2011 must submit proof of completion of a Board approved training 

course as outlined in Rule 64B16-26.351, F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.014 FS. Law Implemented 465.014 FS. History—New 8-5-10. 

64B16-26.351 Standards for Approval of Registered Pharmacy Technician Training Programs. 
(1) The following programs are approved Registered Pharmacy Technician Training programs: 
(a) Pharmacy technician training programs accredited, on or before January 1, 2011 by the American Society of Health-System 

Pharmacists, 
(b) Pharmacy technician training programs at institutions accredited, on or before January 1, 2011 by the Southern Association 

of Colleges and Schools, 
(c) Pharmacy technician training programs approved on or before January 1, 2011 by the Florida Commission for Independent 

Education, 
(d) Pharmacy technician training programs provided by a branch of the federal armed services on or before January 1, 2011. 
(e) Pharmacy technician training programs at institutions accredited on or before January 1, 2011 by the Council on 

Occupational Education. 
(2) All programs not listed in paragraphs (1)(a) through (e) and which are not employer based programs, must: 

(a) Meet the requirements of and be licensed by the Commission for Independent Education pursuant to Chapter 1005, F.S., or 

the equivalent licensing authority of another state or be within the public school system of the State of Florida; and: 

(b) Offer a course of study that includes classroom study and clinical instruction that includes the following: 
1. Introduction to pharmacy and health care systems: 
a. Confidentiality, 



b. Patient rights and Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), 
2. Pharmacy law: 

a. Federal law, 

b. Florida State law, 
c. Florida State rules, 

d. Pharmacy technician Florida rules and law, 

3. Pharmaceutical medical terminology, abbreviations, and symbols: 
a. Medication safety and error prevention, 
b. Prescriptions and medication orders, 
4. Records management and inventory control: 
a. Pharmaceutical supplies, 
b. Medication labeling, 
c. Medication packaging and storage, 
d. Controlled substances, 
e. Adjudication and billing, 
5. Interpersonal relations, communications, and ethics: 
a. Diversity of communications, 
b. Empathetic communications, 
c. Ethics governing pharmacy practice, 
d. Patient and caregiver communication, 
6. Pharmaceutical calculations. 
(c) Apply directly to the Board of Pharmacy on approved form DH-MQA 1239 "Board of Pharmacy Application for Registered 

Pharmacy Technician Training Programs," effective December 2010, 
which is hereby incorporated by reference. To obtain an application, contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald Cypress 

Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595, or download the application from the board's website at 

http//:www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy and provide the following information: 
1. Sample transcript and diploma; 
2. Copy of curriculum, catalog or other course descriptions; and 
3. Faculty credentials. 
(d) Use materials and methods that demonstrate that: 
1. Learning experiences and teaching methods convey the content stated above. 
2. Time allocated for each participant shall be sufficient to meet the objectives of each activity. 
3. Principles of adult education are utilized in determining teaching strategies and learning activities. 
(e) Demonstrate that the faculty is qualified to teach the subject-matter by complying with the following: 
1. The program shall provide evidence of academic preparation or experience in the subject matter by submitting a job 

description, resume or curriculum vitae which describes the faculty member's work experience and level of academic preparation. 
2. When the subject matter of an offering includes pharmacy technician practice, a licensed pharmacist or registered pharmacy 

technician with expertise in the content area must be involved in the planning and instruction. 
3. Pharmacy technician faculty supervising learning experiences in a clinical area in this State shall be licensed or registered. 
(3) All other training programs must be employer based. Any pharmacy technician training program sponsored by a Florida 

permitted pharmacy or affiliated group of pharmacies under common ownership, must contain a minimum of 160 hours of training, 
that extends over a period not to exceed 6 months; is provided solely to employees of said pharmacy or affiliated group; and has 
been approved by the Board. An application for approval of a Registered Pharmacy Technician Training Program shall be made on 
Board of Pharmacy approved form DH-MQA 1239 "Board of Pharmacy Application for Registered Pharmacy Technician Training 
Programs," effective December 2010. The applicant must attach to the application copy of curriculum, catalog or other course 
description. All employer based programs must: 

(a) Offer a course of study that includes a classroom study and clinical instruction that includes the following: 
1. Introduction to pharmacy and health care systems: 
a. Confidentiality, 



b. Patient rights and Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). 
2. Pharmacy law: 

a. Federal law, 

b. Florida State law, 
c. Florida State rules, 

d. Pharmacy technician Florida rules and law. 

3. Pharmaceutical-medical terminology, abbreviations, and symbols: 
a. Medication safety and error prevention, 
b. Prescriptions and medication orders. 
4. Records management and inventory control: 
a. Pharmaceutical supplies, 
b. Medication labeling, 
c. Medication packaging and storage, 
d. Controlled substances, 
e. Adjudication and billing. 
5. Interpersonal relations, communications, and ethics: 
a. Diversity of communications, 
b. Empathetic communications, 
c. Ethics governing pharmacy practice, 
d. Patient and caregiver communication. 
6. Pharmaceutical calculations. 
(b) Use materials and methods that demonstrate that: 
1. Learning experiences and teaching methods convey the content stated above. 
2. Time allocated for each participant shall be sufficient to meet the objectives of each activity. 
3. Principles of adult education are utilized in determining teaching strategies and learning activities. 
(c) Demonstrate that the faculty is qualified to teach the subject matter by complying with the following: 
1. The program shall provide evidence of academic preparation or experience in the subject matter by submitting a job 

description, resume or curriculum vitae which describes the faculty member's work experience and level of academic preparation. 
2. When the subject matter of an offering includes pharmacy technician practice, a licensed pharmacist or registered pharmacy 

technician with expertise in the content area must be involved in the planning and instruction. 
3. Pharmacy technician faculty supervising learning experiences in a clinical area in this State shall be licensed or registered. 
4. When an offering includes clinical practice training in Florida, a Florida licensed pharmacist competent in the practice area 

shall provide supervision. 
(d) Give participants an opportunity to evaluate learning experiences, instructional methods, facilities and resources used for the 

offering. To ensure participants will be given an opportunity to evaluate the program, the applicant must submit a sample evaluation 
to be reviewed by the Board. 

(e) Ensure that self-directed learning experiences, including but not limited to home study, computer programs, internet or web- 
based courses evaluate participant knowledge at the completion of the learning experience. The evaluation must include a minimum 
of 100 questions. The participant must achieve a minimum score of 70% on the evaluation to receive the certificate of completion. 
The evaluation must be graded by the provider. 

1) Designate a person to assume responsibility for registered pharmacy technician training program. If the contact person is not 
a licensed pharmacist or registered pharmacy technician, provision should be made for insuring licensed pharmacist or registered 
pharmacy technician input in overall program planning and evaluation. 

(g) Establish written policies and procedures for implementation of the registered pharmacy technician training program. 
(h) Maintain a system of record-keeping which provides for storage of program information. 
(i) Maintain program records for a period not less than three years during which time the records must be available for 

inspection by the board or department. 
(j) Furnish each participant with an authenticated individual Certificate of Completion. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.014 FS. Law Implemented 465.014 FS. History—New 6-23-10, Amended 11-17-11. 





64B16-26.600 Tripartite Continuing Education Committee. 
(1) The Tripartite Continuing Education Committee will be composed of equal representation from the Board of Pharmacy, 

each College or School of Pharmacy in the State, and practicing pharmacists within the State. The members of the Committee shall 
be selected by the Board of Pharmacy and shall serve for a period of two years. The chairman of the committee shall be selected by 
the Chair of the Board. 

(2) The Tripartite Continuing Education Committee shall perform the following duties pursuant to Rule 64B 16-26.601, F.A.C.: 

(a) Review continuing education providers and make recommendations to the Board; 
(b) Approve continuing education course or program for approved providers or individuals that are non-approved providers for 

the following: 
1. General; 
2. Initial Consultant Pharmacist Certification; 
3. Consultant Recertification; 
4. Nuclear Recertification; 
5. Medication Errors; 
6. HIV/AIDS; 
7. Laboratory Tests; 
8. Laws and Rules; 
9. Quality Related Events. 
(3) The Tripartite Continuing Education Committee shall perform auditing and monitoring activities pursuant to Rule 64B 16- 

26.601, F.A.C. The Tripartite Committee shall perform an audit on each approved continuing education provider 90 days prior to the 

end of the biennium. The approved provider shall submit the following information for one program of the provider's choosing and 
one program selected by the Board: 

(a) Title, date and location of the program; 
(b) Program Number; 
(c) Any Co-sponsors; 
(d) Total number of pharmacists attending; 
(e) Rosters of attendees with appropriate license numbers; 
(f) Brochures of program announcement; 
(g) CV's of each speaker; 
(h) Handouts, Copy of CE Credit statement, educational materials distributed as part of the program; and 
(i) Summary report of program evaluations. 
(4) The Committee shall hold meetings as may be convened at the call of the Chairman of the Committee. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.009(5) FS. Law Implemented 465.009 FS. History—New 10-18-79, Amended 7-29-81, Formerly 21S-13.01, 

21S-13.001, 21S-26.600, 61F10-26.600, 59X-26.600, Amended 10-15-01, 3-10-05, 6-11-09. 

64B16-26.601 Standards for Approval of Courses and Providers. 
(1) Each proposal for program or course approval submitted by a qualified provider must contain a detailed outline of the 

content of said program or course on forms which will be provided by the Board of Pharmacy upon request, and must build upon 
Standards of Practice and a basic course or courses offered in the curricula of accredited colleges or schools of pharmacy. 
Continuing education may consist of post-baccalaureate degree programs offered by accredited colleges or schools of pharmacy, 
post-graduate studies, institutes, seminars, lectures, conferences, workshops, correspondence courses, or other such committee- 
approved educational methods. 

(2) All offerings must meet the following standards: 
(a) Education Content Development. 
1. Continuing education offerings shall involve advance planning that includes a statement of measurable educational goals and 

behavioral objectives. 
2. Continuing education offerings shall be designed to reflect the educational needs of the pharmacist and build on the standards 

for practice and courses in the curricula of accredited colleges or schools of pharmacy. 
3. Each continuing education offering shall be designed to explore one subject or a group of closely related subjects or 



standards. 
(b) Methods of Delivery. 
1. The method of delivery of a course shall be determined by giving appropriate consideration to such factors as educational 

content, objectives, and composition of the audience. 
2. The method of delivery must encourage active participation and involvement on the part of the pharmacist. 
(c) Program Faculty Qualifications. 
1. The program faculty for a particular continuing education offering shall be competent in the subject matter and qualified by 

experience. 
2. An appropriate number of program faculty for each activity shall be utilized. 
3. There shall be adequate personnel to assist with administrative matters and personnel with competencies outside content areas 

in cases where the method of delivery requires technical or other special expertise. 
(d) Facilities. 
1. The facilities to be utilized shall be appropriate and adequate to the content, method of delivery, size of the audience and 

promote the attainment of the objectives of the offering. 
(e) Evaluation. The provider must make provision for evaluation of the participants' attainment of the stated learner objectives 

through in-process activities that provide a measurable demonstration of the learner's achievement(s). 
2. The provider must develop and employ an evaluation mechanism for the purpose of allowing the participant to assess his/her 

achievement of personal objectives. 
3. The provider shall develop and employ an evaluation mechanism that will assess the effectiveness of the learning 

experiences, instructional methods, facilities, and resources used for the offering. 
(f) Contact Hour Criteria. The number of contact hours or Continuing Education Units shall be determined by the provider in 

advance of the offering subject to approval by the committee and awarded upon the successful completion of the entire planned 
education experience. 

(g) Record Keeping. 
1. Records of individual offerings shall be maintained by the provider for inspection by the Board. The records shall be 

adequate to serve the needs of the participants and to pennit the Board to monitor for adherence to the standards for continuing 
education offerings as outlined in the rules. 

2. An individual certificate of attendance specifying title of offering, provider number, date of offering, and number of contact 
hours earned shall be furnished to each participant by the provider. 

3. Records shall be maintained by the provider for a minimum of three (3) years. 

(3) Providers seeking board approval shall meet each of the standards outlined herein: 
(a) All continuing education offerings conducted by the provider shall meet the standards for continuing education offerings as 

outlined in these rules. 
(b) There shall be a visible, continuous, and identifiable authority charged with administration of continuing education 

programs. The person or persons in whom the administrative function is vested shall be qualified by virtue of background and 
experience and approval by the committee. 

(4) All programs approved by the Accreditation Council on Pharmacy Education (ACPE) for continuing education for 
pharmacists may be deemed approved by this Board for general continuing education hours for pharmacists. 

(5) Entities or individuals who wish to become approved providers of continuing education must submit an initial approval fee 

of $150 and provide information to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of this rule. A provider seeking to renew 
approved provider status shall pay a renewal fee of $150. 

(6) Entities or individuals applying for approval of an individual program shall submit a fee of $50 and provide information to 
demonstrate compliance with this rule. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.009 FS. Law Implemented 456.025(7), 465.009 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Amended 7-29-81, Formerly 21S- 

13.02, 21S-13.002, Amended 1-10-93, Formerly 21S-26.601, 61F10-26.601, 59X-26.601, Amended 1-29-03. 

64B16-26.6012 Guidelines for Board Ordered Disciplinary Continuing Education Courses. 
Any continuing education course being taken as part of a disciplinary order, unless otherwise ordered by the Board, may be 
conducted by any method, including live, correspondence, or distant education. 



(1) Laws and Rules courses shall be at least twelve (12) hours in length. The program shall include review and analysis of the 
laws regulating the profession of pharmacy in the State of Florida with discussion of recent changes to Florida Statutes and Board of 
Pharmacy rules. The remainder of the continuing education program shall be derived from the following areas: 

(a) Federal laws related to: 

1. Handling, management, and dispensing of controlled substances; 
2. Protected patient information; and 
3. Medicare. 
(b) Chapters 456, 499 and 893, F.S; 

(c) Florida Medicaid program; 
(d) Nursing home and Assisted Living Facility regulations; 
(e) Prescriber laws and regulations; 

(0 Pharmacy ethics; 

(g) The Joint Commission (TJC) standards; 
(h) Food and Drug Administration policies and procedures; 
(i) Implementation of disaster and emergency preparedness plans by Florida pharmacists and pharmacy services providers; and 
(j) Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) 

guidelines and requirements for pharmacy employers. 
(2) Quality Related Event (QRE) courses shall be at least eight (8) hours in length. 

(a) Course material shall include: 
1. Pharmacy error detection; 
2. Pharmacy error prevention; and 
3. Case studies of pharmacists who have made dosing calculation, checking/interpreting prescriptions, or dispensing errors. 
(b) Course material shall include the following specific subject areas: 
1. Common error types and causes; 
2. Root cause analysis; 
3. Process mapping and management; 
4. System analysis; 
5. Failure mode and effects analysis; 
6. Human factors, cognitive and personality impacts; 
7. Practice management and effective delegation tools; 
8. Stress management; 
9. Effective communication; 
10. Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) rules; 
11. CQI implementation tools; 
12. Individual self assessment, planning, and goal setting. The individual self assessment shall include a requirement that the 

pharmacist prepare a written report, in essay form, summarizing the impact of the course, what the pharmacist learned, and the 
changes that the pharmacist will implement in practice as a result of the course. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.072(2) 465.005, 465.016(4) FS. Law Implemented 456.072(2), 465.016(4) FS. History—New 7-21-09. 

64B16-26.602 Recommendation by the Tripartite Continuing Education Committee. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.009 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Amended 7-29-81, Formerly 21S-13.03, 21S-13.003, 

21S-26. 602, Amended 7-18-94, Formerly 61F10-26. 602, 59X-26. 602, Repealed 8-16-01 



64B16-26.603 Continuing Education Records Requirements. 
Each pharmacist shall retain documentation of participation in continuing education programs required for license renewal for not 
less than two years after the license is renewed for audit purposes if and when such audit is undertaken by the Department of Health 
and the Board of Pharmacy. Such documentation shall consist of statements of credit for lecture attendance, certification forms from 
instructors, or course completion slips from correspondence courses. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.009 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-13.04, Amended 5-10-89, Formerly 21S- 

13.004, 21S-26.603, 61F10-26.603, 59X-26.603, Amended 1-11-05. 

64B16-26.606 Number of Required Hours. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.009 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-13.07, 21S-13.007, Amended 7-31-91, 

Formerly 21S-26. 606, 61F10-26. 606, 59X-26. 606, Amended 2-23-98, 1-12-03, Repealed 3-1 0-05. 



CHAPTER 64B16-27 
PHARMACY PRACTICE 

64B16-27.l00 Display of Current License; Pharmacist, Registered Pharmacy Technician Intern Identification 
64B16-27.1001 Practice of Pharmacy 
64B 16-27.1003 Transmission of Prescription Orders 
64B 16-27.101 Counterfeit Drugs 
64B16-27.103 Oral Prescriptions and Copies 
64B 16-27.104 Conduct Governing Pharmacists and Pharmacy Permittees 
64B 16-27.1042 Rebates Prohibited; Violations Defined 
64B 16-27.105 Transfer of Prescriptions 
64B 16-27.120 Ordering and Evaluation of Laboratory Tests 
64B16-27.200 Purpose and Effect 
64B 16-27.210 General Terms and Conditions to Be Followed by a Pharmacist When Ordering and Dispensing Approved 

Medicinal Drug Products 
64B16-27.211 Prescription Refills 
64B 16-27.220 Medicinal Drugs Which May Be Ordered by Pharmacists 
64B 16-27.230 Fluoride Containing Products 
64B 16-27.300 Standards of Practice - Continuous Quality Improvement Program 
64B16-27.400 Practice of Pharmacy (Repealed) 
64B 16-27.410 Registered Pharmacy Technician, to Pharmacist Ratio 
64B 16-27.420 Registered Pharmacy Technician Responsibilities 
64B16-27.430 Responsibilities of the Pharmacist 
64B16-27.440 Policies and Procedures 
64B 16-27.500 Negative Drug Formulary 
64B16-27.510 Identification of Manufacturer 
64B16-27.520 Positive Drug Formulary 
64B 16-27.530 Duty of Pharmacist to Inform Regarding Drug Substitution 
64B16-27.615 Possession and Disposition of Sample Medicinal Drugs 
64B16-27.620 Disposition of Complimentary or Sample Medicinal Drugs Which Are Unsuitable for Dispensing (Repealed) 
64B 16-27.700 Definition of Compounding 
64B16-27.797 Standards of Practice for Compounding Sterile Preparations (CSPs) 
64B 16-27.800 Requirement for Patient Records 
64B16-27.810 Prospective Drug Use Review 
64B16-27.820 Patient Counseling 
64B 16-27.830 Standards of Practice - Drug Therapy Management 
64B16-27.831 Standards of Practice for the Dispensing of Controlled Substances for Treatment of Pain 
64B16-27.850 Standards of Practice for Orthotics and Pedorthics 
64B 16-27.851 Record-Keeping for Orthotics and Pedorthics 

64B16-27.100 Display of Current License; Pharmacist, Registered, Intern, and Registered Pharmacy Technician 
Identification. 

(1) The current license of each pharmacist engaged in the practice of the profession of pharmacy as defined by Section 
465.003(13), F.S., in any pharmacy shall be displayed, when applicable, in a conspicuous place in or near the prescription 
department, and in such manner that said license can be easily read by patrons of said establishment. Pharmacists employed in 

secondary practice sites shall present a valid wallet license as evidence of licensure upon request. 
(2) No pharmacist shall display, cause to be displayed or allow to be displayed, their license in any pharmacy where said 

pharmacist is not engaged in the practice of the profession as defined in Section 465.003(13), F.S. 

(3) A pharmacist and registered pharmacy intern must be clearly identified by a means such as an identification badge or 
monogrammed smock showing their name and if they are a pharmacist or a registered pharmacy intern. 

(4) The current registration of each registered pharmacy technician shall be displayed, when applicable, in a conspicuous place 
in or near the prescription department, and in such a manner that can be easily read by patrons of said establishment. Registered 



pharmacy technicians employed in a secondary practice site shall present a valid wallet registration as evidence of registration upon 
request. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Formerly 21S-1.06, 21S-1.006, Amended 7-30-91, Formerly 21S-27.100, 61F10-27.100, Amended 1-30-96, Formerly 59X-27.100, Amended 11-18- 

07, 1-1-10. 

64B16-27.1001 Practice of Pharmacy. 
Those functions within the definition of the practice of the profession of pharmacy, as defined by Section 465.003(13), F.S., are 

specifically reserved to a pharmacist or a duly registered pharmacy intern in this state acting under the direct and immediate personal 
supervision of a pharmacist. The following subjects come solely within the purview of the pharmacist. 

(1) A pharmacist or registered pharmacy intern must: 
(a) Supervise and be responsible for the controlled substance inventory. 
(b) Receive verbal prescriptions from a practitioner. 
(c) Interpret and identify prescription contents. 
(d) Engage in consultation with a practitioner regarding interpretation of the prescription and date in patient profile. 
(e) Engage in professional communication with practitioners, nurses or other health professionals. 
(f) Advise or consult with a patient, both as to the prescription and the patient profile record. 
(2) When parenteral and bulk solutions of all sizes are prepared, regardless of the route of administration, the pharmacist must: 

(a) Interpret and identify all incoming orders. 
(b) Mix all extemporaneous compounding or be physically present and give direction to the registered pharmacy technician for 

reconstitution, for addition of additives, or for bulk compounding of the parenteral solution. 
(c) Physically examine, certifSi to the accuracy of the final preparation, thereby assuming responsibility for the final preparation. 
(d) Systemize all records and documentation of processing in such a manner that professional responsibility can be easily traced 

to a pharmacist. 
(3) Only a pharmacist may make the final check of the completed prescription thereby assuming the complete responsibility for 

its preparation and accuracy. 
(4) The pharmacist, as an integral aspect of dispensing, shall be directly and immediately available to the patient or the patient's 

agent for consultation and shall not dispense to a third party. No prescription shall be deemed to be properly dispensed unless the 
pharmacist is personally available. 

(5) The pharmacist performing in this state any of the acts defined as "the practice of the profession of pharmacy" in Section 
465.003(13), F.S., shall be actively licensed as a pharmacist in this state, regardless of whether the practice occurs in a permitted 
location (facility) or other location. 

(6) The pharmacist may take a meal break, not to exceed 30 minutes in length, during which the pharmacy department of a 

permittee shall not be considered closed, under the following conditions: 
(a) The pharmacist shall be considered present and on duty during any such meal break if a sign has been prominently posted in 

the pharmacy indicating the specific hours of the day during which meal breaks may be taken by the pharmacist and assuring 
patients that a pharmacist is available on the premises for consultation upon request during a meal break. 

(b) The pharmacist shall be considered directly and immediately available to patients during such meal breaks if patients to 

whom medications are delivered during meal breaks are verbally informed that they may request that a pharmacist contact them at 

the pharmacist's earliest convenience after the meal break, and if a pharmacist is available on the premises during the meal break for 
consultation regarding emergency matters. Only prescriptions with the final certification by the pharmacist may be delivered. 

(c) The activities of registered pharmacy technicians during such a meal break shall be considered to be under the direct and 
immediate personal supervision of a pharmacist if the pharmacist is available on the premises during the meal break to respond to 
questions by the technicians, and if at the end of the meal break the pharmacist certifies all prescriptions prepared by the registered 
pharmacy technicians during the meal break. 

(7) The delegation of any duties, tasks or functions to registered pharmacy interns and registered pharmacy technicians must be 
performed subject to a continuing review and ultimate supervision of the pharmacist who instigated the specific task, so that a 

continuity of supervised activity is present between one pharmacist and one registered pharmacy technician. In every pharmacy, the 



pharmacist shall retain the professional and personal responsibility for any delegated act performed by registered pharmacy interns 
and registered pharmacy technicians in the licensee's employ or under the licensee's supervision. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.003 (1 1) (b), (13), 465.014, 465.026 FS. History—New 11-18-0 7, Amended 1-1- 

10. 

64B16-27.1003 Transmission of Prescription Orders. 
Prescriptions may be transmitted from prescriber to dispenser in written form or by any means of communication. Prescriptions may 
be transmitted by facsimile systems as provided in Section 465.035, F.S., and federal law. Any direct transmission of prescriptions, 
including verbal, facsimile, telephonic or electronic data transmission, shall only be with the approval of the patient or patient's 
agent. The pharmacist receiving any such transmitted prescription shall not participate in any system that the pharmacist knows or 
should have reason to know restricts the patient's choice of pharmacy. The pharmacist shall take such measures necessary to ensure 
the validity of all prescriptions received. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022, 465.026, 893.07 FS. History—New 11-18-07. 

64B16-27.1O1 Counterfeit Drugs. 
No pharmacist or pharmacy employee or proprietor shall knowingly purchase, sell, possess or distribute drugs which are commonly 
called counterfeit, or which are misbranded, or improperly labeled as described by the Florida Drug and Cosmetic Law. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Formerly 21S-1.15, 21S-1.015, Amended 7-30-91, Formerly 21S-27.101, 61F10-27.101, 59X-27.101. 

64B16-27.103 Oral Prescriptions and Copies. 
(1) Only a pharmacist or registered pharmacy intern acting under the supervision of a pharmacist may, in the State of Florida, 

accept an oral prescription of any nature. 
(2) Only a pharmacist or registered pharmacy intern acting under the supervision of a pharmacist may, in the State of Florida, 

prepare a copy of a prescription or read a prescription to any person for purposes of providing reference concerning treatment of the 
person or animal for whom the prescription was written, and when said copy is given a notation shall be made upon the prescription 
that a copy has been given, the date given, and to whom given. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.014, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003(13), 465.014, 465.022, 1(b) FS. History— 

Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, Formerly 21S-1.18, 21S-1.018, 21S-27.103, 61F10-27.103, Amended 9-19-94, Formerly 59X-2 7.1 03, 

Amended 10-15-01, 11-18-07. 

64B16-27.104 Conduct Governing Pharmacists and Pharmacy Permittees. 
(1) A pharmacist or pharmacy shall be permitted to advertise medicinal drugs other than those controlled substances specified in 

Chapter 893, F.S., and patent and proprietary preparations so long as such advertising is not false, misleading or deceptive. 
(2) No pharmacist, employer or employee of a pharmacy shall maintain a location, other than a pharmacy for which a permit has 

been issued by the Florida Board of Pharmacy, from which to solicit, accept or dispense prescriptions. 
(3) No pharmacist or pharmacy, or employee or agent thereof; shall enter into or engage in any agreement or arrangement with 

any physician or other practitioner or nursing home or extended care facility for the payment or acceptance of compensation in any 
form or type for the recommending of the professional services of either; or enter into a rebate or percentage rental agreement of any 
kind, whereby in any way a patient's free choice of a pharmacist or pharmacy is or may be limited. 

(4) No pharmacist, employer or employee of a pharmacy may knowingly place in stock of any pharmacy any part of any 
prescription compounded for, or dispensed to, any customer of any pharmacy and returned by said customer, unless otherwise 
permitted by Rule 64B16-28.1 18, F.A.C. 

(5) Pursuant to Section 465.018, F.S., a permit for a community pharmacy may not be issued unless a licensed pharmacist is 

designated as the prescription department manager responsible for maintaining all drug records, providing for the security of the 
prescription department and following such other rules as relate to the practice of the profession of pharmacy. The Board shall not 
register a prescription department manager as the manager of more than one pharmacy. The Board shall grant an exception to this 
requirement upon application by the permittee and the prescription department manager showing circumstances such as proximity of 



permits and limited pharmacist workload that would allow the manager to carry out all duties and responsibilities required of a 

prescription department manager. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.018, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.018, 465.022, 465.024 FS. History—New 10-20-81, 

Formerly 21S-1.20, 21S-1.020, Amended 7-30-91, Formerly 21S-27.104, 61F10-27.104, 59X-27.104, Amended 11-18-07. 

64B16-27.1042 Rebates Prohibited; Violations Defined. 
As provided in Section 465.185(1), F.S., acts which will be considered as falling within the range of activities which would justify 
discipline against a pharmacist or permittee as provided in Section 465.016(l)(e) or Section 465.023(l)(c), F.S., shall include: 

(1) Offering or providing cash, or goods, or entertainment (including, money, food or decorations) to a health care facility (as 

defined in Section 408.032(7), F.S.) or its representative in exchange for favorable consideration in obtaining or maintaining the 
business of the facility; 

(2) Offering or providing supplies or equipment to a health care facility (as defined in Section 408.032(7), F.S.) at no charge or 
below market value when these items are not integral elements of the medication distribution system; 

(3) Paying rent to a health care facility (as defined in Section 408.032(7), F.S.) for space that is not used or is unusable or 

paying a rental rate for space that is significantly greater than the usual and customary rental rate for similar space; 
(4) Offering or providing computers, FAX machines, or other electronic devices to a health care facility (as defined in Section 

408.032(7), F.S.) when that equipment is not an integral element in providing pharmacy or consultant services; 
(5) Offering or providing a health care facility (as defined in Section 408.032(7), F.S.) consultant pharmacist services, or 

providing patient medical record systems, or any personnel services outside the practice of pharmacy, at no charge, below market 
value, or below cost in exchange for obtaining or maintaining the business of the facility. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.185, 465.0155 FS. History—New 3-9-94, Formerly 61F10-2 7.1 042, 59X- 

27.1042. 

64B16-27.105 Transfer of Prescriptions. 
(1) A pharmacist or registered pharmacy intern acting under the direct personal supervision of a Florida registered pharmacist 

may transfer a valid prescription which is on file in another pharmacy in this state or any other state if such transfer is consistent 
with the conditions set forth in Section 465.026, F.S. Prior to dispensing, the pharmacist or pharmacy where the prescription is on 
file shall be notified verbally, or by any electronic means that the former prescription must be voided. 

(2) In processing a transferred prescription pursuant to Section 465.026, F.S., the pharmacist has the option of substituting a 

generically equivalent product if such substitution is consistent with the provisions of Section 465.025, F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.026 FS. History—New 1-3-79, Formerly 21S-1.33, 21S-1.033, Amended 7-30- 

91, Formerly 21S-2 7.1 05, 61F10-27.105, Amended 9-19-94, Formerly 59X-2 7.1 05, Amended 6-15-98. 

64B16-27.120 Ordering and Evaluation of Laboratory Tests. 
Those consultant pharmacists and pharmacists holding the Doctor of Pharmacy degree that meet the continuing education 
requirements of Rule 64B 16-26.320, F.A.C., may order and evaluate laboratory tests to the extent allowed by the provisions of 
Section 465.0125, F.S. Evidence of such training and authorization to perform these tasks shall be furnished to the board, the patient, 
or the patient's physician upon request. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.0125(3) FS. Law Implemented 465.0125(2) FS. History—New 2-23-98. 

64B16-27.200 Purpose and Effect. 
The purpose of this rule chapter is to set forth pursuant to the requirements of Section 465.186, F.S., the medicinal drug products 
which may be ordered and dispensed by pharmacists to the public and to set forth the terms and conditions under which such 
ordering and dispensing by the pharmacist may take place. The list of drugs set forth below and the conditions under which said 
drugs may be ordered and dispensed have been determined pursuant to a joint committee of medical, osteopathic and pharmacy 
professionals as created by Section 465.186, F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.186(2) FS. Law Implemented 465.186 FS. History—New 5-1-86, Formerly 21S-18.001, 21S-27.200, 61F10-27.200, 59X- 



2 7.200. 

64B16-27.210 General Terms and Conditions to Be Followed by a Pharmacist When Ordering and Dispensing Approved 
Medicinal Drug Products. 
Pursuant to the authority of the Formulary Committee in Section 465.186, F.S., a pharmacist may order the medicinal drug products 
listed in Rule 64B16-27.220, F.A.C., subject to the following terms and limitations: 

(1) Injectable products shall not be ordered by the pharmacist. 
(2) No oral medicinal drugs shall be ordered by a pharmacist for a pregnant patient or nursing mother. 
(3) In any case of dispensing hereunder, the amount or quantity of drug dispensed shall not exceed a 34-day supply or standard 

course of treatment unless subject to the specific limitations in this rule. Patients shall be advised that they should seek the advice of 
an appropriate health care provider if their present condition, symptom, or complaint does not improve upon the completion of the 
drug regimen. 

(4) The directions for use of all prescribed medicinal drugs shall not exceed the manufacturer's recommended dosage. 
(5) The pharmacist may only perform the acts of ordering and dispensing in a pharmacy which has been issued a permit by the 

Board of Pharmacy. 
(6) The pharmacist shall create a prescription when ordering and dispensing medicinal drug products which shall be maintained 

in the prescription files of the pharmacy. The pharmacist shall place the trade or generic name and the quantity dispensed on the 
prescription label, in addition to all other label requirements. 

(7) The pharmacist shall maintain patient profiles, separate from the prescription order, for all patients for whom the pharmacist 
orders and dispenses medicinal drug products and shall initial and date each profile entry. Such profiles shall be maintained at the 
pharmacy wherein the ordering and dispensing originated for a period of two (2) years. 

(8) In the patient profiles, the pharmacist shall record as a minimum the following information if a medicinal drug product is 

ordered and dispensed. 
(a) Patient's chief complaint or condition in the patient's own words. 
(b) A statement regarding the patient's medical history. 
(c) A statement regarding the patient's current complaint which may include, onset, duration and frequency of the problem. 
(d) The medicinal drug product ordered and dispensed. 
(e) The pharmacist ordering and dispensing the medicinal drug product shall initial the profile. 
(f) The prescription number shall be recorded in the patient's profile. 
(9) A medicinal drug product may be ordered, and dispensed only by the pharmacist so ordering. 
(10) Only legend medicinal drugs may be prescribed by a pharmacist. Over-the-counter drugs are exempt from the requirements 

of this rule and shall be recommended as over-the-counter products. 
(11) Pharmacy interns and technicians may not be involved in the ordering of the medicinal drugs permitted in this rule. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.186(2) FS. Law Implemented 465.186 FS. History—New 5-1-86, Formerly 21S-18.002, 21S-27.210, 61F10-27.210, 59X- 

2 7.210, Amended 11-18-0 7. 

64B16-27.211 Prescription Refills. 
No prescription may be filled or refilled in excess of one (1) year from the date of the original prescription was written. No 
prescription for a controlled substance listed in Schedule II may be refilled. No prescription for a controlled substance listed in 

Schedules III, IV, or V may be filled or refilled more than five (5) times within a period of six (6) months after the date on which the 
prescription was written. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.016(1), 465.0220) (a), 893.04 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—New 11-18-0 7. 

64B16-27.220 Medicinal Drugs Which May Be Ordered by Pharmacists. 
A Pharmacist may order and dispense from the following formulary, within their professional judgment, subject to the stated 
conditions. 

(1) Oral analgesics for mild to moderate pain. The pharmacist may order these drugs for minor pain and menstrual cramps for 
patients with no history of peptic ulcer disease. The prescription shall be limited to a six (6) day supply for one treatment. If 
appropriate, the prescription shall be labeled to be taken with food or milk. 



(a) Magnesium salicylate/phenyltoloxamine citrate. 
(b) Acetylsalicylic acid (Zero order release, long acting tablets). 
(c) Choline salicylate and magnesium salicylate. 
(d) Naproxen sodium. 
(e) Naproxen. 
(f) Ibuprofen. 
(2) Urinary analgesics. Phenazopyridine, not exceeding a two (2) day supply. The prescriptions shall be labeled about the 

tendency to discolor urine. If appropriate, the prescription shall be labeled to be taken after meals. 
(3) Otic analgesics. Antipyrine 5.4%, benzocaine 1.4%, glycerin, if clinical signs or symptions of tympanic membrane 

perforation do not exist. The product shall be labeled for use in the ear only. 
(4) Anti-nausea preparations. 
(a) Meclizine up to 25 mg., except for a patient currently using a central nervous system (CNS) depressant. The prescription 

shall be labeled to advise the patient of drowsiness and to caution against concomitant use with alcohol or other depressants. 
(b) Scopolamine not exceeding 1.5 mg. per dermal patch. Patient shall be warned to seek appropriate medical attention if eye 

pain, redness or decreased vision develops. 
(5) Antihistamines and decongestants. The following, including their salts, either as a single ingredient product or in 

combination, including nasal decongestants, may be ordered for a patient above 6 years of age. 

(a) Antihistamines. The pharmacist shall warn the patient that an antihistamine should not be used by patients with bronchial 
asthma or other lower respiratory symptoms, glaucoma, cardiovascular disorders, hypertension, prostate conditions and urinary 
retention. An antihistamine shall be labeled to advise the patient of drowsiness and caution against the concomitant use with alcohol 
or other depressants. 

1. Diphenhydramine. 
2. Carbinoxamine. 
3. Pyrilamine. 
4. Dexchlorpheniramine. 
5. Brompheniramine. 
(b) Decongestants. The pharmacist shall not order an oral decongestant for use by a patient with coronary artery disease, angina, 

hyperthyroidism, diabetes, glaucoma, prostate conditions, hypertension, or a patient currently using a monoamine oxidase inhibitor. 
1. Phenylephrine. 
2. Azatadine. 
(6) Topical antifungal/antibacterials. The pharmacist shall warn the patient that any of the products should not be used near deep 

or puncture wounds and contact with eyes or mucous membranes should be avoided. Iodochlorhydroxyquin preparations shall be 
labeled with staining potential. 

(a) lodochiorhydroxyquin with 0.5% Hydrocortisone (not exceeding 20 grams). 
(b) Haloprogin 1%. 

(c) Clotrimazole topical cream and lotion. 
(d) Erythromycin topical. 
(7) Topical anti-inflammatory. The pharmacist shall warn the patient that hydrocortisone should not be used on bacterial 

infections, viral infections, fungal infections, or by patients with impaired circulation. The prescription shall be labeled to advise the 

patient to avoid contact with eyes, mucous membranes or broken skin. Preparations containing hydrocortisone not exceeding 2.5%. 
(8) Otic antifungal/antibacterial. Acetic acid 2% in aluminum acetate solution which shall be labeled for use in ears only. 

(9) Keratolytics. Salicylic acid 16.7% and lactic acid 16.7% in flexible collodion, to be applied to warts, except for patients 
under two (2) years of age, and those with diabetes or impaired circulation. Prescriptions shall be labeled to avoid contact with 
normal skin, eyes and mucous membranes. 

(10) Vitamins with fluoride. (This does not include vitamins with folic acid in excess of 0.9 mg.) 
(11) Medicinal drug shampoos containing Lindane. The pharmacist shall: 
(a) Limit the order to the treatment of head lice only; 

(b) Order no more than four (4) ounces per person; and 
(c) Provide the patient with the appropriate instructions and precautions for use. 



(12) Ophthalmics. Naphazoline 0.1% ophthalmic solution. 
(13) Histamine H2 antagonists. The pharrmacist shall advise the patient to seek medical attention if symptom persist longer than 

14 days while using the medication or if stools darken or contain blood. 
(a) Cimetidine. 
(b) Famotidine. 
(c) Ranitidine HC 1. 

(14) Acne products. Benzoyl Peroxide. The prescription shall be labeled to advise the patient to avoid use on the eye, eyelid, or 
mucous membranes. 

(15) Topical Antiviral. 
(a) Acyclovir ointment may be ordered for the treatment of herpes simplex infections of the lips. 
(b) Penciclovir. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.186(2) FS. Law Implemented 465.186 FS. History—New 5-1-86, Amended 10-7-90, Formerly 21S-18.003, Amended 7- 

30-91, Formerly 21S-27.220, 61F10-27.220, Amended 3-12-9 7, Formerly 59X-27.220, Amended 6-15-98, 11-30-99, 11-18-07. 

64B16-27.230 Fluoride Containing Products That May Be Ordered by Pharmacists. 
Oral medicinal drug products containing fluoride may be ordered by pharmacists for their patients who do not have fluoride 
supplement in their drinking water, pursuant to the following limitations: 

(1) The fluoride content of drinking water does not exceed 0.5 ppm. 
(2) Once a fluoride treatment has been initiated with one specific fluoride medicinal drug product it should not be interchanged 

with a product of a different manufacturer for the course of the treatment. 
(3) If the fluoride content is less than 0.5 ppm then the following dosage schedule for oral usage shall be followed. 
(a)1. For ages 0-6 months. 
a. Less than 0.3 ppm in water no supplementation, 
b. 0.3-0.6 ppm in water no supplementation, 
c. 0.6 ppm in water no supplementation, 
2. For ages 6 months 3 years, 
a. Less than 0.3 ppm in water supplement with 0.25 mg. F/day, 
b. 0.3-0.6 ppm in water no supplementation, 
c. 0.6 ppm in water no supplementation. 
3. For ages 3-6 years. 
a. Less than 0.3 ppm in water supplement with 0.5 mg. F/day, 
b. 0.3-0.6 ppm in water supplement with 0.25 mg. F/day, 
c. 0.6 ppm in water no supplementation. 
4. For ages 6-16 years. 
a. Less than 0.3 ppm in water supplement with 1.00 mg. F/day, 
b. 0.3-0.6 ppm in water supplement with 0.5 mg. F/day, 
c. 0.6 ppm in water no supplementation. 
(b) No more than 264 mg. of sodium fluoride may be dispensed at any one time to a patient. 
(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection 64B16-27.210(3), F.A.C., a pharmacist may continue a course of therapy with 

fluoride products until appropriate referral to another health care practitioner is indicated or in no event shall the course of therapy 
be more than one (1) year. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.186(2) FS. Law Implemented 465.186 FS. History—New 5-1-86, Formerly 21S-18.004, 21S-27.230, 61F10-27.230, 59X- 

2 7.230, Amended 6-15-98. 

64B16-27.300 Standards of Practice - Continuous Quality Improvement Program. 
(1) "Continuous Quality Improvement Program" means a system of standards and procedures to identify and evaluate quality- 

related events and improve patient care. 

(2) "Quality-Related Event" means the inappropriate dispensing or administration of a prescribed medication including: 
(a) A variation from the prescriber's prescription order, including, but not limited to: 



1. Incorrect drug; 

2. Incorrect drug strength; 
3. Incorrect dosage form; 
4. Incorrect patient; or 
5. Inadequate or incorrect packaging, labeling, or directions. 
(b) A failure to identify and manage: 
1. Over-utilization or under-utilization; 
2. Therapeutic duplication; 
3. Drug-disease contraindications; 
4. Drug-drug interactions; 
5. Incorrect drug dosage or duration of drug treatment; 
6. Drug-allergy interactions; or 
7. Clinical abuse/misuse. 
(3)(a) Each pharmacy shall establish a Continuous Quality Improvement Program which program shall be described in the 

pharmacy's policy and procedure manual and, at a minimum shall contain: 
1. Provisions for a Continuous Quality Improvement Committee that may be comprised of staff members of the pharmacy, 

including pharmacists, registered pharmacy interns, registered pharmacy technicians, clerical staff, and other personnel deemed 
necessary by the prescription department manager or the consultant pharmacist of record; 

2. Provisions for the prescription department manager or the consultant pharmacist of record to ensure that the committee 
conducts a review of Quality Related Events at least every three months. 

3. A planned process to record, measure, assess, and improve the quality of patient care; and 
4. The procedure for reviewing Quality Related Events. 
(b) As a component of its Continuous Quality Improvement Program, each pharmacy shall assure that, following a Quality- 

Related Event, all reasonably necessary steps have been taken to remedy any problem for the patient. 
(c) At a minimum, the review shall consider the effects on quality of the pharmacy system due to staffing levels, workflow, and 

technological support. 
(4) Each Quality-Related Event that occurs, or is alleged to have occurred, as the result of activities in a pharmacy, shall be 

documented in a written record or computer database created solely for that purpose. The Quality-Related Event shall be initially 
documented by the pharmacist to whom it is described, and it shall be recorded on the same day of its having been described to the 
pharmacist. Documentation of a Quality-Related Event shall include a description of the event that is sufficient to permit 
categorization and analysis of the event. Pharmacists shall maintain such records at least until the event has been considered by the 
committee and incorporated in the summary required in subsection (5) below. 

(5) Records maintained as a component of a pharmacy Continuous Quality Improvement Program are confidential under the 

provisions of Section 766.101, F.S. In order to determine compliance the Department may review the policy and procedures and a 

Summarization of Quality-Related Events. The summarization document shall analyze remedial measures undertaken following a 

Quality-Related Event. No patient name or employee name shall be included in this summarization. The summarization shall be 
maintained for two years. Records are considered peer-review documents and are not subject to discovery in civil litigation or 
administrative actions. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.0155 FS. History—New 7-15-99, Amended 1-2-02, 6-16-03, 11-18-0 7, 1-1-10. 

64B16-27.400 Practice of Pharmacy. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.003 (1 1) (b), (13), 465.014, 465.026 FS. History—New 2-14-77, Formerly 21S- 

4.01, 21S-4.001, Amended 7-30-91, Formerly 21S-27.400, 61F10-27.400, Amended 1-30-96, 10-1 -96, Formerly 59X-27.400, Amended 4-13-00, 

Repealed 10-5 -09. 

64B16-27.410 Registered Pharmacy Technician, to Pharmacist Ratio. 
(1) Registered pharmacy technicians may assist a pharmacist in performing professional services within a pharmacy 

environment provided that no pharmacist shall supervise more than one registered pharmacy technician unless otherwise permitted 
by the Florida Board of Pharmacy. A pharmacist's supervision of a registered pharmacy technician in a working environment 



requires that a registered pharmacy technician be under the direct personal supervision of a pharmacist. 
(2) The prescription department manager or consultant pharmacist of record is required to submit a written request and receive 

approval prior to the pharmacy's allowing a pharmacist to supervise more than one registered pharmacy technician as permitted by 
law. Such requests shall be reviewed and pre-approved by Board staff according to the guidelines adopted herein, and submitted to 

the Board for ratification. 
(3) The request to practice with a ratio greater than 1:1 shall include a brief description of the workflow needs that justify the 

ratio request. The brief description of workflow needs shall include the operating hours of the pharmacy, number of pharmacists, 
registered interns, and registered pharmacy technicians employed. 

(4) A pharmacy that employs pharmacy technicians shall meet the following conditions: 
(a) Establish written job descriptions, task protocols, and policies and procedures that pertain to duties performed by the 

registered pharmacy technician and provide this information to the Board upon request; 
(b) Establish that each registered pharmacy technician is knowledgeable in the established job descriptions, task protocols, and 

policy and procedures in the pharmacy setting in which the technician is to perform his or her duties; 
(c) Ensure that the duties assigned to any registered pharmacy technician do not exceed the established job descriptions, task 

protocols, and policy and procedures, nor involve any of the prohibited tasks in Rule 64B16-27.420, F.A.C.; or 
(d) Ensure that each registered pharmacy technician receives employer-based or on-the-job training in order for the registered 

pharmacy technician to assume his or her responsibilities and maintain documentation of the training. 

(5) The pharmacy shall maintain a policy and procedure manual with regard to registered pharmacy technicians which shall 
include the following: 

(a) Supervision by a pharmacist; 
(b) Minimum qualifications as established by law; 

(c) Documentation of in-service education and/or on-going training and demonstration of competency, specific to practice site 

and job function; 
(d) General duties and responsibilities of registered pharmacy technicians; 
(e) Retrieval of prescription files, patient files, patient profile information and other records pertaining to the practice of 

pharmacy; 
(f) All functions related to prescription processing; 
(g) All functions related to prescription legend drug and controlled substance ordering and inventory control, including 

procedures for documentation and recordkeeping; 
(h) rescription refill and renewal authorization; 
(i) Registered pharmacy technician ffinctions related to automated pharmacy systems; and 
(j) Continuous quality improvement program. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.014, 893.07(1)(b) FS. History—New 2-14-77, Amended 3-31-81, Formerly 21S-4.02, 

Amended 8-31-87, Formerly 21S-4.002, Amended 9-9-92, Formerly 21S-27.410, 61F10-27.410, Amended 1-30-96, Formerly 59X-27.410, 

Amended 2-23-98, 10-15-01, 1-1-10. 



64B16-27.420 Registered Pharmacy Technician Responsibilities. 
(1) Registered pharmacy technicians may assist the pharmacist in performing the following tasks: 
(a) Retrieval of prescription files, patient files and profiles and other such records pertaining to the practice of pharmacy; 
(b) Data Entry; 
(c) Label preparation; 
(d) The counting, weighing, measuring, pouring and mixing of prescription medication or stock legend drugs and controlled 

substances, including the filling of an automated medication system; 
(e) Initiate communication to a prescribing practitioner or their medical staffs (or agents) regarding patient prescription refill 

authorization requests. For the purposes of this section "prescription refill" means the dispensing of medications pursuant to a 

prescriber's authorization provided on the original prescription; 
(f) Initiate communication to confirm the patient's name, medication, strength, quantity, directions and date of last refill; 

(g) Initiate conmiunication to a prescribing practitioner or their medical staff (or agents) to obtain clarification on missing or 
illegible dates, prescriber name, brand/generic preference, quantity, DEA registration number or license numbers; and 

(h) May accept authorization for a prescription renewal. For the purposes of this section, "prescription renewal" means the 

dispensing of medications pursuant to a practitioner's authorization to fill an existing prescription that has no refill remaining. 
(2) Registered Pharmacy technicians shall not: 

(a) Receive new verbal prescriptions or any change in the medication, strength or directions; 
(b) Interpret a prescription or medication order for therapeutic acceptability and appropriateness; 
(c) Conduct a final verification of dosage and directions; 
(d) Engage in prospective drug review; 
(e) Provide patient counseling; 
(f) Monitor prescription usage; and 

(g) Override clinical alerts without first notifying the pharmacist. 
(3) Nuclear pharmacy permits allow the registered pharmacy technician to receive diagnostic orders only. The pharmacist must 

receive therapy or blood product procedure orders. 
(4)(a) All registered pharmacy technicians shall identify themselves as registered pharmacy technicians by wearing a type of 

identification badge that is clearly visible which specifically identifies the employee by name and by status as a "registered 
pharmacy technician"; and 

(b) All registered pharmacy technicians shall state their names and verbally identify themselves as registered pharmacy 
technicians in the context of telephone or other forms of communication. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.014 FS. Law Implemented 465.014 FS. History—New 8-31-8 7, Formerly 21S-4.0025, Amended 7-30-91, 

Formerly 21S-27.420, 61F10-27.420, 59X-27.420, Amended 2-23-98, 1-1-10, 8-26-12. 

64B16-27.430 Responsibilities of the Pharmacist. 
The delegation of any duties, tasks or functions to registered pharmacy interns and registered pharmacy technicians must be 
performed subject to a continuing review and ultimate supervision of the pharmacist who instigated the specific task, so that a 

continuity of supervised activity is present between one (1) pharmacist and one (1) registered pharmacy technician. In every 
pharmacy, the licensed pharmacist shall retain the professional and personal responsibility for any delegated act performed by 
registered pharmacy interns and registered pharmacy technicians in his employ and under his supervision. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.014 FS. History—New 2-14-77, Formerly 21S-4.03, Amended 9-1-87, Formerly 21S- 

4.003, 21S-2 7.430, 61F10-27.430, 59X-27.430, Amended 1-1-10. 

64B16-27.440 Policies and Procedures. 
Any pharmacy utilizing registered pharmacy technicians shall be required to have written policies and procedures regarding the 
number of positions and their utilization, including the specific scope of responsibilities of technicians, available for inspection by 
the Florida Board of Pharmacy or its authorized agents and representatives. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.014 FS. History—New 2-14-77, Formerly 21S-4.04, 21S-4.004, Amended 9-9-92, 

Formerly 21S-27.440, 61F10-27.440, 59X-27.440, Amended 1-1-10. 



64B16-27.500 Negative Drug Formulary. 
The negative drug formulary is composed of medicinal drugs which have been specifically determined by the Board of Pharmacy 
and the Board of Medicine to demonstrate clinically significant biological or therapeutic inequivalence and which, if substituted, 
could produce adverse clinical effects, or could otherwise pose a threat to the health and safety of patients receiving such 
prescription medications. Except where certain dosage forms are included on the negative drug formulary as a class, all medicinal 
drugs are listed by their official United States Pharmacopoeia Non-Proprietary (generic) name. The generic name of a drug shall be 
applicable to and include all brand-name equivalents of such drug for which a prescriber may write a prescription. Substitution by a 

dispensing pharmacist on a prescription written for any brand name equivalent of a generic named drug product listed on the 
negative formulary or for a drug within the class of certain dosage forms as listed, is strictly prohibited. In cases where the 
prescription is written for a drug listed on the negative drug formulary but a brand name equivalent is not specified by the prescriber, 
the drug dispensed must be one obtained from a manufacturer or distributor holding an approved new drug application or 
abbreviated new drug application issued by the Food and Drug Administration, United States Department of Health and Welfare 
permitting that manufacturer or distributor to market those medicinal drugs or when the former is non-applicable, those 
manufacturers or distributors supplying such medicinal drugs must show compliance with other applicable Federal Food and Drug 
Administration marketing requirements. The following are included on the negative drug formulary: 

(1) Digitoxin. 
(2) Conjugated Estrogen. 
(3) Dicumarol. 
(4) Chlorpromazine (Solid Oral Dosage Forms). 
(5) Theophylline (Controlled Release). 
(6) Pancrelipase (Oral Dosage Forms). 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.025(6) FS., Ch. 200 1-146, Laws of Florida. Law Implemented 465.025(6) FS., Ch. 2001-146, Laws of Florida. 

History—New 12-14-76, Amended 3-17-77, 7-2-79, 4-9-81, 9-14-82, 9-26-84, Formerly 21S-5.01, Amended 3-30-89, 7-1-90, Formerly 21S-5.001, 

Amended 12-25-90, 10-1 -92, Formerly 21S-27.500, Amended 2-21-94, Formerly 61F10-27.500, 59X-27.500, Amended 12-4 -01, 3-18-10. 

64B16-27.51O Identification of Manufacturer. 
Each formulary of generic and brand name drug products established by each community pharmacy pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 465.025, F.S., shall include the name of the manufacturer of the generic drug listed in said formulary. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.025 FS. History—New 3-16-77, Formerly 21S-5.02, 21S-5.002, 21S-27.510, 61F10- 

27.510, 59X-27.510. 

64B16-27.520 Positive Drug Formulary. 
A positive formulary of generic and brand name drug products is required of each community pharmacy pursuant to subsection 
465.025(5), F.S. Those medicinal drugs on the positive formulary shall be obtained from manufacturers or distributors holding an 

approved new drug application or abbreviated new drug application issued by the Food and Drug Administration, U.S. Department 
of Health, Education and Welfare permitting that manufacturer or distributor to market those medicinal drugs or when the former is 

non-applicable, those manufacturers or distributors supplying those medicinal drugs must show compliance with other applicable 
Federal Food and Drug Administration marketing requirements. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.025(6) FS. History—New 12-7-77, Formerly 21S-5.03, 21S-5.003, 21S-27.520, 61F10- 

2 7.520, 59X-27.520. 



64B16-27.530 Duty of Pharmacist to Inform Regarding Drug Substitution. 
Prior to the delivery of the prescription, a pharmacist must inform the person presenting a prescription of any substitution of a 

generic drug product for a brand name drug product, of any retail price difference between the two, and of the person's right to 

refuse the substitution. This information must be communicated at a meaningful time such as to allow the person to make an 
informed choice as to whether to exercise the option to refuse substitution without undue inconvenience to the presenter of the 
prescription or to the consumer of the drug. This information shall be communicated to the person presenting the prescription in a 

manner determined to be appropriate by the pharmacist using professional discretion and judgment. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.025(3) (a) FS. History—New 11-10-80, Formerly 21S-5. 04, 21S-5. 004, 21S-2 7.530, 

61F10-2 7.530, 59X-27.530, Amended 11-18-07. 

64B16-27.615 Possession and Disposition of Sample Medicinal Drugs. 
(1) Pharmacies may not be in possession of sample medicinal drugs except: 
(a) Pharmacies may possess the sample medicinal drugs that are listed within Rule 64B16-27.220, F.A.C., Medicinal Drugs 

That May be Ordered by Pharmacists. 
(b) Institutional pharmacies may possess sample medicinal drugs upon the written request of the prescribing practitioner. Such 

possession must be in accordance with the provisions of Section 499.028(3)(e)2., F.S. 

(c) Those community pharmacies that are pharmacies of health care entities, as defined by Sections 499.003(3) and (14), F.S., 
may possess sample medicinal drugs upon the written request of the prescribing practitioner. Such possession must be in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 499.028(3)(e)2., F.S. 

(2) Sample packages of medicinal drugs that are found to be unsuitable for dispensing by reason of physical condition or failure 
to meet requirements of state or federal law shall be returned to the company of origin in accordance with the requirements of 
Chapter 499, F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022, 499.028 FS. Law Implemented 465.018, 465.019, 465.022, 465.186, 499.028 FS. History—New 11-4-93, 

Formerly 61F10-2 7.615, 59X-27. 615, Amended 11-18-07. 

64B16-27.620 Disposition of Complimentary or Sample Medicinal Drugs Which Are Unsuitable for Dispensing. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022, 499.028 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—New 12-26-79, Formerly 21S-15.03, 21S-15.003, 

21S-27. 620, Amended 11-4-93, Formerly 61F1 0-27.620, 59X-27. 620, Repealed 10-5 -09. 

64B16-27.700 Definition of Compounding. 
"Compounding" is the professional act by a pharmacist or other practitioner authorized by law, employing the science or art of any 
branch of the profession of pharmacy, incorporating ingredients to create a finished product for dispensing to a patient or for 
administration by a practitioner or the practitioner's agent; and shall specifically include the professional act of preparing a unique 
finished product containing any ingredient or device defined by Sections 465.003(7) and (8), F.S. The term also includes the 
preparation of nuclear pharmaceuticals and diagnostic kits incident to use of such nuclear pharmaceuticals. The term "commercially 
available products," as used in this section, means any medicinal product as defined by Sections 465.003(7) and (8), F.S., that are 
legally distributed in the State of Florida by a drug manufacturer or wholesaler. 

(1) Compounding includes: 
(a) The preparation of drugs or devices in anticipation of prescriptions based on routine, regularly observed prescribing patterns. 
(b) The preparation pursuant to a prescription of drugs or devices which are not commercially available. 
(c) The preparation of commercially available products from bulk when the prescribing practitioner has prescribed the 

compounded product on a per prescription basis and the patient has been made aware that the compounded product will be prepared 
by the pharmacist. The reconstitution of commercially available products pursuant to the manufacturer's guidelines is permissible 
without notice to the practitioner. 

(2) The preparation of drugs or devices for sale or transfer to pharmacies, practitioners, or entities for purposes of dispensing or 
distribution is not compounding and is not within the practice of the profession of pharmacy. Except that the supply of patient 
specific compounded prescriptions to another pharmacy under the provisions of Section 465.0265, F.S., and Rule 64B16-28.450, 
F.A.C., is authorized. 



(3) Office use compounding, "Office use" means the provision and administration of a compounded drug to a patient by a 

practitioner in the practitioner's office or by the practitioner in a health care facility or treatment setting, including a hospital, 
ambulatory surgical center, or pharmacy. A pharmacist may dispense and deliver a quantity of a compounded drug to a practitioner 
for office use by the practitioner in accordance with this section provided: 

(a) The quantity of compounded drug does not exceed the amount a practitioner anticipates may be used in the practitioner's 
office before the expiration date of the drug; 

(b) The quantity of compounded drug is reasonable considering the intended use of the compounded drug and the nature of the 
practitioner's practice; 

(c) The quantity of compounded drug for any practitioner and all practitioners as a whole, is not greater than an amount the 
pharmacy is capable of compounding in compliance with pharmaceutical standards for identity, strength, quality, and purity of the 
compounded drug that are consistent with United States Pharmacopoeia guidelines and accreditation practices. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.003 (1 2), 465.0155, 465.0265 FS. History—New 10-1 -92, Formerly 21S-27. 700, 61F10- 

27.700, 59X-27.700, Amended 11-2-03, 10-7-08. 

64B16-27.797 Standards of Practice for Compounding Sterile Preparations (CSPs). 
The purpose of this section is to assure positive patient outcomes through the provision of standards for 1) pharmaceutical care; 2) 

the preparation, labeling, and distribution of sterile pharmaceuticals by pharmacies, pursuant to or in anticipation of a prescription 
drug order, and 3) product quality and characteristics. These standards are intended to apply to all sterile pharmaceuticals, 
notwithstanding the location of the patient (e.g., home, hospital, nursing home, hospice, doctor's office). 

(1) Definitions: 
(a) "Anteroom" means an area where personnel perform hand hygiene and garbing procedures, staging of components, order 

entry, CSP labeling, and other high-particulate generating activities. It is also a transition area that provides assurance that pressure 
relationships are constantly maintained so that air flows from clean to dirty areas. The Anteroom area is to be maintained within ISO 
Class 8 level of particulate contamination. 

(b) "Antineoplastic" means a pharmaceutical agent that has the intent of causing cell death targeted to cancer cells, metastatic 
cells, or other cells involved in a severe inflammatory or autoimmune response. 

(c) "Beyond-use-date" means the date after which a compounded preparation should not be used and is determined from the 
date the preparation was compounded. 

(d) "Biological safety cabinet" means a containment unit suitable for the preparation of low, moderate, and high risk agents 
where there is a need for protection of the product, personnel, and environment. 

(e) "Bulk Compounding" means the compounding of CSPs in increments of twenty-five (25) or more doses from a single 
source. 

(0 "Buffer area" (Clean room) is an area where the activities of CSP take place; it shall not contain sinks or drains. In High- 
Risk compounding this must be a separate room. The Buffer area is to be maintained within ISO Class 7 level of particulate 
contamination. 

(g) "Class 100 environment" means an atmospheric environment which contains no more than one hundred particles of 0.5 

microns in diameter or larger per cubic foot of air. A class 100 environment is equivalent to ISO Class 5 level of particulate 
contamination. 

(h) "Compounding Aseptic Isolator" (CAT) is a form of barrier isolator specifically designed for compounding pharmaceutical 
ingredients or preparations. It is designed to maintain an aseptic compounding environment within the isolator throughout the 
compounding and material transfer process. Air exchange into the isolator from the surrounding environment should not occur 
unless it is first passed through a microbially retentive filter (HEPA minimum 0.2 microns). 

(i) "High-Risk Level CSPs" are products compounded under any of the following conditions are either non-sterile or at high 
risk to become non-sterile with infectious microorganisms. 

1. Non-sterile ingredients, including manufactured products for routes of administration other than sterile parenteral 
administration are incorporated or a non-sterile device is employed before terminal sterilization. 

2. Sterile contents of commercially manufactured products, CSP that lack effective antimicrobial preservatives, sterile surfaces 
of devices and containers for the preparation, transfer, sterilization, and packaging of CSPs are exposed to air quality worse than ISO 
Class 5 for more than one (1) hour. 



as and are air 

compounding are and for more 
4. in a the storage periods cannot exceed 

the following time before administration, the CSPs are properly stored and exposed for not more than 24 hours at controlled 
room temperature, and for not more than 3 days at a cold temperature (2-8 degrees Celsius) and for not more than 45 days in solid 
frozen state at -20 degrees celsius or colder. 

5. Examples of high-risk compounding include: (1) dissolving non-sterile bulk drug and nutrient powders to make solutions, 
which will be terminally sterilized; (2) exposing the sterile ingredients and components used to prepare and package CSPs to room 
air quality worse than ISO Class 5 for more than one (1) hour; (3) measuring and mixing sterile ingredients in non-sterile devices 
before sterilization is performed; (4) assuming, without appropriate evidence or direct determination, that packages of bulk 
ingredients contain at least 95% by weight of their active chemical moiety and have not been contaminated or adulterated between 
uses. 

6. All high risk category products must be rendered sterile by heat sterilization, gas sterilization, or filtration sterilization in 

order to become a CSP. 

7. Quality assurance practices for high-risk level CSPs include all those for low-risk level CSPs. In addition, each person 
authorized to compound high-risk level CSPs demonstrates competency by completing a media-filled test that represents high-level 
compounding semiannually. 

(j) Immediate Use CSPs: 
1. Requires only simple aseptic measuring and transfer manipulations are performed with not more than three (3) sterile non- 

hazardous drug or diagnostic radiopharmaceutical drug preparations, including an infusion or dilution solution. 
2. The preparation procedure occurs continuously without delays or interruptions and does not exceed 1 hour. 
3. At no point during preparation and prior to administration are critical surfaces and ingredients of the CSP directly exposed to 

contact contamination such as human touch, cosmetic flakes or particulates, blood, human body substances (excretions and 
secretions, e.g., nasal or oral) and non-sterile inanimate sources. 

4. Administration begins not later than one (1) hour following the start of preparing the CSP. 

5. When the CSP is not administered by the person who prepared it, or its administration is not witnessed by the person who 

prepared it, the CSP container shall bear a label listing patient identification information (name, identification numbers), and the 
names and amounts of all active ingredients, and the name or identifiable initials of the person who prepared the CSP, and one (1) 

hour beyond-use time and date. 

6. If administration has not begun within one (1) hour following the start of preparing the CSP, the CSP is promptly and safely 
discarded. Immediate use CSPs shall not be stored for later use. 

(k) ISO Class 5 guidelines are met when particulate contamination is measured at "not more than 3,520 particles 0.5 micron size 

or larger per cubic meter of air for any lamiar airflow workbench (LAWF), BSC, or !. (Also referred to as a "Class 100 

environment.") 
(1) ISO Class 7 guidelines are met when particulate contamination is measured at "not more than 352,000 particles 0.5 micron 

size or larger per cubic meter of air for any buffer area (room)." 
(m) ISO Class 8 guidelines are met when particulate contamination is measured at "not more than 3,520,000 particles 0.5 

micron size or larger per cubic meter of air for any anteroom (area)." 
(n) Low-Risk Level CSPs compounded under all of the following are at a low risk of contamination: 
1. The CSPs are compounded with aseptic manipulations entirely within ISO Class 5 (class 100) or better air quality using only 

sterile ingredients, products, components, and devices. 
2. The compounding involves only transfer, measuring, and mixing manipulations using no more than three commercially 

manufactured sterile products and entries into one container (e.g., bag, vial) of sterile product to make the CSP. 
3. Manipulations are limited to aseptically opening ampoules, penetrating sterile stoppers on vials with sterile needles and 

syringes, and transferring sterile liquids in sterile syringes to sterile administration devices, package containers for storage and 
dispensing. The contents of ampoules shall be passed through a sterile filter to remove any particles. 

4. For low-risk preparation, in the absence of passing a sterility test or a documented validated process, the storage periods 
cannot exceed the following time periods; before administration, the CSPs are properly stored and exposed for not more than 48 



hours at controlled room temperature, and for not more than 14 days at a cold temperature (2-8 degrees celsius) and for 45 days in 
solid frozen state at -20 degrees celsius or colder. 

5. Quality Assurance practices include, but are not limited to, the following: (1) routine disinfection and air quality testing of the 
direct compounding environment to minimize microbial surface contamination and maintain ISO Class 5 air quality; (2) Visual 
confirmation that compounding personnel are properly donning and wearing appropriate items and types of protective garments; (3) 

Review of all orders and packages of ingredients to ensure that the correct identity and amounts of ingredients were compounded; 
(4) Visual inspection of CSPs to ensure the absence of particulate matter in solutions, the absence of leakage from vials and bags, 
and accuracy and thoroughness of labeling. 

6. All compounding personnel are required to demonstrate competency by completing a media-filled test that represents low- 
level compounding annually. A media-filled test is a commercially available sterile fluid culture media that shall be able to promote 
exponential colonization of bacteria that are both likely to be transmitted to CSP from the compounding personnel and environment. 
Media filled vials are incubated at 25-3 5 degrees celsius for 14 days. Failure is indicated by visible turbidity in the medium on or 
before 14 days. 

(o) Medium-Risk Level CSPs When CSPs are compounded aseptically under Low-Risk Conditions, and one or more of the 

following conditions exist, such CSPs are at a medium risk of contamination: 
1. CSPs containing more than three (3) commercial sterile drug products and those requiring complex manipulations and/or 

preparation methods. 
2. Multiple individual or small doses of sterile products are combined or pooled to prepare a CSP that will be administered 

either to multiple patients or to one patient on multiple occasions. 
3. The compounding process requires unusually long duration, such as that required to complete dissolution or homogeneous 

mixing. 
4. For Medium-risk preparation, in the absence of passing a sterility test or a documented validated process, the storage periods 

cannot exceed the following time periods; before administration, the CSPs are properly stored and exposed for not more than 30 

hours at controlled room temperature, and for not more than 9 days at a cold temperature and for 45 days in solid frozen state at -20 

degrees celsius or colder. 
5. These include compounding of total parenteral nutrition (TPN) using either manual or automated devices during which there 

are multiple injections, detachments, and attachments of nutrient source products to the device or machine to deliver all nutritional 
components to a final sterile container. 

6. Filling of reservoirs of injection and infttsion devices with more than three (3) sterile drug products and evacuation of air 
from those reservoirs before the filled devices are dispensed. 

7. Transfer of volumes from multiple ampules or vials into one or more final sterile containers. 
8. Quality assurance practices for medium-risk level CSPs include all those for low-risk level CSPs. 

9. Demonstrates competency by completing a media-filled test that represents medium-level compounding annually. 
(p) Parenteral means a sterile preparation of drugs for injection through one or more layers of the skin. 

(q) Risk level of the sterile preparation means the level assigned to a sterile product by a pharmacist that represents the 

probability that the sterile product will be contaminated with microbial organisms, spores, endotoxins, foreign chemicals or other 
physical matter. 

(r) Sterile preparation means any dosage form devoid of viable microorganisms, including but not limited to, parenterals, 
injectables, ophthalmics, and aqueous inhalant solutions for respiratory treatments. 

(2) Compounded sterile preparations include, but are not limited, to the following: 
(a) Total Parenteral Nutrition (TPN) solutions; 
(b) Parenteral analgesic drugs; 
(c) Parenteral antibiotics; 
(d) Parenteral antineoplastic agents; 
(e) Parenteral electrolytes; 
(f) Parenteral vitamins; 
(g) Irrigating fluids; 
(h) Ophthalmic preparations; and 
(i) Aqueous inhalant solutions for respiratory treatments. 





1. USP Pharmacist Pharmacopeia (optional) or Handbook of Injectable Drugs by American Society of Hospital Pharmacists; or 
other nationally recognized standard reference; and 

2. "Practice Guidelines for Personnel Dealing with Cytotoxic Drugs," or other nationally recognized standard cytotoxic 
reference if applicable. 

(e) Barrier isolator is exempt from all physical requirements subject to manufacturer guidelines for proper placement. 
(6) Antineoplastic Drugs. The following requirements are necessary for those pharmacies that prepare antineoplastic drugs to 

ensure the protection of the personnel involved: 
(a) All antineoplastic drugs shall be compounded in a vertical flow, Class II, biological safety cabinet placed in negative 

pressure room unless using barrier isolators. Other preparations shall not be compounded in this cabinet. 
(b) Protective apparel shall be worn by personnel compounding antineoplastic drugs. This shall include at least gloves and 

gowns with tight cuffs. 

(c) Appropriate safety and containment techniques for compounding antineoplastic drugs shall be used in conjunction with the 
aseptic techniques required for preparing sterile products. 

(d) Disposal of antineoplastic waste shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal requirements. 
(e) Written procedures for handling both major and minor spills of antineoplastic agents shall be developed and shall be 

included in the policy and procedure manual. 
(f) Prepared doses of antineoplastic drugs shall be dispensed, labeled with proper precautions inside and outside, and shipped in 

a manner to minimize the risk of accidental rupture of the primary container. 
(7) Quality Assurance: 
(a) There shall be a documented, ongoing quality assurance control program that monitors personnel performance, equipment, 

and preparations. Appropriate samples of finished preparations shall be examined to assure that the pharmacy is capable of 
consistently preparing sterile preparations meeting specifications: 

1. All clean rooms and laminar flow hoods shall be certified by an independent contractor or National Sanitation Foundation 
Standard 49, for operational efficiency at least semiannually for high risk CSPs and annually for low and medium risk CSPs or any 
time the hood is relocated or the structure is altered and records shall be maintained for two years. 

2. There shall be written procedures developed requiring sampling if microbial contamination is suspected for batches greater 
than 25 units. 

3. High risk greater than 25 units have antimicrobial testing prior to dispensing. 
4. There shall be referenced written justification of the chosen beyond-use-dates for compounded products. 
5. There shall be documentation of quality assurance audits at regular planned intervals, including infection control and sterile 

technique audits. 
(b) Compounding personnel shall be adequately skilled, educated, instructed, and trained to correctly perform and document the 

following activities in their sterile compounding duties: 
1. Demonstrate by observation or test a ftinctional understanding of USP Chapter 797 and definitions, to include Risk Category 

assessment; 
2. Understand the characteristics of touch contamination and airborne microbial contaminants; 
3. Perform antiseptic hand cleaning and disinfections of non-sterile compounding surfaces; 
4. Select and appropriately don protective garb; 
5. Demonstrate aseptic techniques and requirements while handling medications; 
6. Maintain and achieve sterility of CSPs in ISO Class 5 (Class 100) primary engineering devices and protect personnel and 

compounding environments from contamination by antineoplastic and chemotoxic or other hazardous drugs or substances; 
7. Manipulate sterile products aseptically, sterilize high-risk level CSPs (where applicable) and quality inspect CSPs; 
8. Identify, weigh and measure ingredients; 
9. Prepare product labeling requirements and "beyond use" requirements of product expiration; 
10. Prepare equipment and barrier requirement work requirements to maintain sterility; 
11. Prepare end point testing and demonstrated competencies for relevant risk levels; 
12. Prepare media fills to test aseptic technique. 
(8) Radiopharmaceuticals as Compounded Sterile Products 



(a) Upon release of a Positron Emission Tomography (PET) radiopharmaceutical as a finished drug product from a PET 
production facility, the fhrther manipulation, handling, or use of the product will be considered compounding and will be subject to 

the rules of this section. 
(b) Radiopharmaceuticals compounded from sterile components in closed, sterile containers and with a volume of 100 ml or less 

for single dose injection or not more than 30 ml taken from a multiple dose container, shall be designated as, and conform to, the 

standards for low risk compounding. 
(c) Radiopharmaceuticals shall be compounded using appropriately shielded vials and syringes in a properly functioning ISO 

Class 5 PEC (Primary Engineering Control), located in an ISO Class 8 or better buffer area environment in compliance with special 
handling, shielding, air flow requirements, and radiation safety programs to maintain radiation exposure as low as reasonably 
achievable. 

(d) Radiopharmaceuticals designed for multi use, compounded with Tc-99m, exposed to an ISO Class 5 environment by 
components with no direct contact contamination, may be used up until the time indicated by manufacturers recommendations. 

(e) Technetium 99/Molybdnenum 99 generator systems shall be stored and eluted in an ISO Class 8 or cleaner environment to 

permit special handling, shielding, and airflow requirements. 
(f) Manipulation of blood or blood derived products (e.g. radiolabeling white blood cells) shall be conducted in an area that is 

clearly separated from routine material handling areas and equipment, and shall be controlled by specific standard operating 
procedures to avoid cross contamination of products. The buffer area for manipulation of blood or blood derived products shall be 
maintained as an ISO 7 environment and direct manipulations shall occur in an ISO 5 PEC suitable for these products (e.g. 
biological safety cabinet). 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0155, 465.022 FS. History—New 6-18-08, Amended 1-7-10. 

64B16-27.800 Requirement for Patient Records. 
(1) A patient record system shall be maintained by all pharmacies for patients to whom new or refill prescriptions are dispensed. 

The patient record system shall provide for the immediate retrieval of information necessary for the dispensing pharmacist to 

identify previously dispensed drugs at the time a new or refill prescription is presented for dispensing. The pharmacist shall ensure 
that a reasonable effort is made to obtain, record and maintain the following information: 

(a) Full name of the patient for whom the drug is intended; 
(b) Address and telephone number of the patient; 
(c) Patient's age or date of birth; 
(d) Patient's gender; 
(e) A list of all new and refill prescriptions obtained by the patient at the pharmacy maintaining the patient record during the 

two years immediately preceding the most recent entry showing the name of the drug or device, prescription number, name and 
strength of the drug, the quantity and date received, and the name of the prescriber; and 

(f) Pharmacist comments relevant to the individual's drug therapy, including any other information peculiar to the specific 
patient or drug. 

(2) The pharmacist shall ensure that a reasonable effort is made to obtain from the patient or the patient's agent and shall record 
any known allergies, drug reactions, idiosyncrasies, and chronic conditions or disease states of the patient and the identity of any 
other drugs, including over-the-counter drugs, or devices currently being used by the patient which may relate to prospective drug 
review. The pharmacist shall record any related information indicated by a licensed health care practitioner. 

(3) A patient record shall be maintained for a period of not less than two years from the date of the last entry in the profile 
record. This record may be a hard copy or a computerized form. 

(4) Patient records shall be maintained for prescriptions dispensed subsequent to the effective date of this regulation. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.022, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.0155 FS. History—New 8-18-93, Formerly 21S-27.800, 61F10-27.800, 59X- 

2 7.800, Amended 6-15-98. 

64B16-27.810 Prospective Drug Use Review. 
(1) A pharmacist shall review the patient record and each new and refill prescription presented for dispensing in order to 

promote therapeutic appropriateness by 
(a) Over-utilization or under-utilization; 



(b) Therapeutic duplication; 
(c) Drug-disease contraindications; 
(d) Drug-drug interactions; 
(e) Incorrect drug dosage or duration of drug treatment; 
(f) Drug-allergy interactions; 
(g) Clinical abuse/misuse. 
(2) Upon recognizing any of the above, the pharmacist shall take appropriate steps to avoid or resolve the potential problems 

which shall, if necessary, include consultation with the prescriber. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.022, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.0155 FS. History—New 8-18-93, Formerly 21S-27.810, 61F10-27.810, 59X- 

27.810. 

64B16-27.820 Patient Counseling. 
(1) Upon receipt of a new or refill prescription, the pharmacist shall ensure that a verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to 

the patient or the patient's agent when present. If the delivery of the drugs to the patient or the patient's agent is not made at the 
pharmacy the offer shall be in writing and shall provide for toll-free telephone access to the pharmacist. If the patient does not refhse 
such counseling, the pharmacist, or the pharmacy intern, acting under the direct and immediate personal supervision of a licensed 
pharmacist, shall review the patient's record and personally discuss matters which will enhance or optimize drug therapy with each 
patient or agent of such patient. Such discussion shall be in person, whenever practicable, or by toll-free telephonic communication 
and shall include appropriate elements of patient counseling. Such elements may include, in the professional judgment of the 
pharmacist, the following: 

(a) The name and description of the drug; 

(b) The dosage form, dose, route of administration, and duration of drug therapy; 
(c) Intended use of the drug and expected action (if indicated by the prescribing health care practitioner); 
(d) Special directions and precautions for preparation, administration, and use by the patient; 
(e) Common severe side or adverse effects or interactions and therapeutic contraindications that may be encountered, including 

their avoidance, and the action required if they occur; 

(0 Techniques for self-monitoring drug therapy; 

(g) Proper storage; 
(h) Prescription refill information; 
(i) Action to be taken in the event of a missed dose; and 
(j) Pharmacist comments relevant to the individual's drug therapy, including any other information peculiar to the specific 

patient or drug. 
(2) Patient counseling as described herein, shall not be required for inpatients of a hospital or institution where other licensed 

health care practitioners are authorized to administer the drug(s). 
(3) A pharmacist shall not be required to counsel a patient or a patient's agent when the patient or patient's agent reftises such 

consultation. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.022, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.0155 FS. History—New 8-18-93, Formerly 21S-27.820, 61F10-27.820, 59X- 

27.820. 

64B16-27.830 Standards of Practice - Drug Therapy Management. 
(1) "Prescriber Care Plan" means an individualized assessment of a patient and orders for specific drugs, laboratory tests, and 

other pharmaceutical services intended to be dispensed or executed by a pharmacist. The Prescriber Care Plan shall be written by a 

physician licensed pursuant to Chapter 458, 459, 461, or 466, F.S., or similar statutory provision in another jurisdiction, and may be 
transmitted by any means of communication. The Prescriber Care Plan shall specify the conditions under which a pharmacist shall 
order laboratory tests, interpret laboratory values ordered for a patient, execute drug therapy orders for a patient, and notify the 
physician. 

(2) "Drug Therapy Management" means any act or service by a pharmacist in compliance with orders in a Prescriber Care Plan. 
(3) A pharmacist may provide Drug Therapy Management services for a patient, incidental to the dispensing of medicinal drugs 

or as a part of consulting concerning therapeutic values of medicinal drugs or as part of managing and monitoring the patient's drug 



therapy. A pharmacist who provides Drug Therapy Management services for a patient shall comply with orders in a Prescriber Care 
Plan, insofar as they specify: 

(a) Drug therapy to be initially dispensed to the patient by the pharmacist; or 
(b) Laboratory values or tests to be ordered, monitored and interpreted by the pharmacist; or 
(c) The conditions under which the duly licensed practitioner authorizes the execution of subsequent orders concerning the drug 

therapy for the patient; or 
(d) The conditions under which the pharmacist shall contact or notify the physician. 
(4) A pharmacist who provides Drug Therapy Management services shall do so only under the auspices of a pharmacy permit 

that provides the following: 
(a) A transferable patient care record that includes: 
1. A Prescriber Care Plan that includes a section noted as "orders" from a duly licensed physician for each patient for whom a 

pharmacist provides Drug Therapy Management services; 
2. Progress notes; and 
(b) A pharmaceutical care area that is private, distinct, and partitioned from any area in which activities other than patient care 

activities occur, and in which the pharmacist and patient may sit down during the provision of Drug Therapy Management services; 
and 

(c) A continuous quality improvement program that includes standards and procedures to identify, evaluate, and constantly 
improve Drug Therapy Management services provided by a pharmacist. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.003(13), 465.0155, 465. 022(Jftb) FS. History—New 4-4-00. 

64B16-27.831 Standards of Practice for the Dispensing of Controlled Substances for Treatment of Pain. 
(1) An order purporting to be a prescription that is not issued for a legitimate medical purpose is not a prescription and the 

pharmacist knowingly filling such a purported prescription shall be subject to penalties for violations of the law. 
(2) The following criteria shall cause a pharmacist to question whether a prescription was issued for a legitimate medical 

purpose: 
(a) Frequent loss of controlled substance medications, 
(b) Only controlled substance medications are prescribed for a patient, 
(c) One person presents controlled substance prescriptions with different patient names, 
(d) Same or similar controlled substance medication is prescribed by two or more prescribers at same time, 
(e) Patient always pays cash and always insists on brand name product. 
(3) If any of the criteria in (2) is met, the pharmacist shall: 

(a) Require that the person to whom the medication is dispensed provide picture identification and the pharmacist should 
photocopy such picture identification for the pharmacist's records. If a photocopier is not available, the pharmacist should document 
on the back of the prescription complete descriptive information from the picture identification. If the person to whom medication is 

dispensed has no picture identification, the pharmacist should confirm the person's identity and document on the back of the 

prescription complete information on which the confirmation is based. 
(b) Verify the prescription with the prescriber. A pharmacist who believes a prescription for a controlled substance medication 

to be valid, but who has not been able to verify it with the prescriber, may determine not to supply the fhll quantity and may 
dispense a partial supply, not to exceed a 72 hour supply. After verification by the prescriber, the pharmacist may dispense the 
balance of the prescription within a 72 hour time period following the initial partial filling, unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

(4) Every pharmacy permit holder shall maintain a computerized record of controlled substance prescriptions dispensed. A hard 
copy printout summary of such record, covering the previous 60 day period, shall be made available within 72 hours following a 

request for it by any law enforcement personnel entitled to request such summary under authority of Section 465.017(2), F. S. Such 
summary shall include information from which it is possible to determine the volume and identity of controlled substance 
medications being dispensed under the prescription of a specific prescriber, and the volume and identity of controlled substance 
medications being dispensed to a specific patient. 

(5) Any pharmacist who has reason to believe that a prescriber of controlled substances is involved in the diversion of 
controlled substances shall report such prescriber to the Department of Health. 

(6) Any pharmacist that dispenses a controlled substance subject to the requirements of this rule when dispensed by mail shall 



be exempt from the requirements to obtain suitable identification. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 456.0 72 (1) (1), 465.0155, 465.016(1)(i,), (0), 465.017(2) FS. History—New 8-29-02, 

Amended 2-24-03, 11-18-0 7. 

64B16-27.85O Standards of Practice for Orthotics and Pedorthics. 
(1) Definitions. 
(a) "Orthosis" means a medical device used to provide support, correction, or alleviation of neuromuscular or musculoskeletal 

dysffinction, disease, injury, or deformity, but does not include the following assistive technology devices: upper extremity adaptive 
equipment used to facilitate the activities of daily living, including specialized utensils, combs, and brushes; finger splints; 
wheelchair seating and equipment that is an integral part of the wheelchair and not worn by the patient; elastic abdominal supports 
that do not have metal or plastic reinforcing stays; arch supports; nontherapeutic accommodative inlays and nontherapeutic 
accommodative footwear, regardless of method of manufacture; unmodified, over-the-counter shoes; prefabricated foot care 
products; durable medical equipment such as canes, crutches, or walkers; dental appliances; or devices implanted into the body by a 

physician. For purposes of this subsection, "accommodative" means designed with the primary goal of conforming to the 

individual's anatomy and "inlay" means any removable material upon which the foot directly rests inside the shoe and which may be 
an integral design component of the shoe. 

(b) "Orthotics" means the practice, pursuant to a licensed physician's written prescription, of evaluating, treatment formulating, 
measuring, designing, fabricating, assembling, fitting, adjusting, servicing, or providing the initial training necessary to accomplish 
the fitting of an orthosis or pedorthic device; however, the repair, replacement, adjustment, or servicing of any existing orthosis may 
be performed without an additional prescription from the patient's physician, unless the original prescription states otherwise. If a 

patient is under the care of a licensed occupational therapist or physical therapist, the pharmacist must consult with the therapist if 
the therapist has requested consultation regarding the fitting, design, or fabrication of an orthosis or regarding treatment with an 
orthosis. 

(c) "Pedorthic device" means therapeutic shoes, shoe modifications made for therapeutic purposes, prosthetic fillers of the 
forefoot, and foot orthoses for use from the ankle and below, but does not include arch supports; nontherapeutic accommodative 
inlays and nontherapeutic accommodative footwear, regardless of method of manufacture; unmodified, over-the-counter shoes; or 
prefabricated foot care products. For purposes of this subsection, "accommodative" means designed with the primary goal of 
conforming to the individual's anatomy and "inlay" means any removable material upon which the foot directly rests inside the shoe 
and which may be an integral design component of the shoe. 

(d) "Pedorthics" means the practice, pursuant to a licensed physician's written prescription, of evaluating, treatment formulating, 
measuring, designing, fabricating, assembling, fitting, adjusting, servicing, or providing the initial training necessary to accomplish 
the fitting of a pedorthic device; however, the repair, replacement, adjustment, or servicing of any existing pedorthic device may be 
performed without an additional prescription from the patient's physician, unless the original prescription states otherwise. If a 

patient is under the care of a licensed occupational therapist or physical therapist, the pharmacist must consult with the therapist if 
the therapist has requested consultation regarding the fitting, design, or fabrication of a pedorthic device or regarding treatment with 
a pedorthic device. 

(2) Pursuant to a licensed physician's written prescription, the pharmacist shall assume the responsibility for assessing the 
patient, planning the patient's treatment program, and directing the program. No pharmacist shall implement a prescription that, in 
the pharmacist's judgment, is contraindicated. No change shall be made in the prescription without the authorization of the 

prescribing physician. 
(3) The pharmacist's professional responsibilities include: 
(a) Ongoing consultation with the prescribing physician regarding information that will impact the patient's medical and 

fttnctional outcomes. 
(b) Orthotic and/or pedorthic evaluation of the patient. 
(c) Identification and documentation of precautions, special problems, or contraindications. 
(d) Development of a treatment plan including the short and long terms goals. 
(e) Implementation of a treatment plan. 
(f) Periodic review and update of the treatment plan, including reassessment of the patient in reference to goals and, when 

necessary, modification of the treatment plan. 



(g) Collaboration with members of the health care team when appropriate. 
(h) Advising the patient, in terms which the patient can understand, of the nature and purpose of the services to be rendered and 

the techniques for use and care of an orthosis or pedorthic device. 
(i) Determination of the appropriateness of proper fit and function of any orthosis or pedorthic device. 
(4) A pharmacist may delegate duties to nonlicensed supportive personnel if those duties are performed under the supervision of 

the pharmacist. In such instances the supervising pharmacist is responsible for all acts performed by such persons. It is below the 
standard of practice and prohibited for a pharmacist to delegate or assign activities, tasks or procedures that fall within the scope of 
any practice defined in Section 468.812(3), F.S., to support persoimel, without providing supervision for the performance of the 

activities, tasks or procedures. 

RulemakingAuthority 468.812(3) FS. Law Implemented 465.0155, 468.812(3) FS. History—New 5-2-07. 

64B16-27.851 Record-Keeping for Orthotics and Pedorthics. 
(1) The pharmacist or supportive personnel shall prepare and maintain in a timely manner patient records which include, at a 

minimum, the following: 
(a) The patient name, address and telephone number; 
(b) The location and dates of all treatment, evaluation or consultation; 
(c) The name of the prescribing physician; 
(d) All prescriptions pertaining to services provided to the patient; 

(e) A treatment or service plan; 
(f) Progress notes for each session; 
(2) The licensee may charge a fee for the reproduction of records, which shall be no greater than $ 1.00 per page for the first 25 

pages, and $0.50 per page for every page after 25. In addition, the actual cost of postage may be added. Reasonable costs of 
reproducing radiographs and such other kinds of records shall be the actual costs. "Actual costs" means the cost of the material and 
supplies used to duplicate the record and the labor and overhead costs associated with the duplication. 

(3) The licensee shall retain the patient record for at least two years from the date of last entry, unless otherwise provided by 
law. 

RulemakingAuthorily 468.802, 468.812(3) FS. Law Implemented 456.057(1 6), 465.0155, 465.022, 468.802, 468.812(3) FS. History-New 5-2-07. 



CHAPTER 64B16-28 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS - PERMITS 

64B16-28.101 Prescription Area Accessible to Inspection 
64B 16-28.102 Sink and Running Water, Sufficient Space, Refrigeration, Sanitation, Equipment 
64B16-28.103 Sufficient Space in Prescription Department (Repealed) 
64B 16-28.1035 Patient Consultation Area 
64B16-28. 104 Refrigeration (Repealed) 
64B16-28. 105 Sanitation (Repealed) 
64B16-28.106 Right to Inspect Invoices (Repealed) 
64B16-28.107 Pharmacy Equipment (Repealed) 
64B16-28.108 All Permits Labels and Labeling of Medicinal Drugs 
64B16-28.1081 Regulation of Daily Operating Hours 
64B16-28.109 Prescription Department; Padlock; Sign: "Prescription Department Closed" 
64B16-28.l 10 Outdated Pharmaceuticals 
64B 16-28.111 Storage of Equipment (Repealed) 
64B16-28.l 12 Violations (Repealed) 
64B16-28.l 13 Permits; Single Entity; Single Location 
64B16-28.l 135 Change of Ownership (Transferred to 64B16-28.2021) 
64B16-28.l 14 Prescription Refills (Repealed) 
64B16-28.118 Unit Dose and Customized Patient Medication Package Returns by In-patients 
64B16-28.119 Data Processing Systems in Pharmacy (Repealed) 
64B16-28.l 191 Unclaimed Prescriptions 
64B 16-28.120 All Permits Storage of Legend Drugs; Prepackaging 
64B 16-28.121 Permit Fees (Repealed) 
64B16-28.130 Transmission of Prescription Orders (Repealed) 
64B16-28.140 Record Maintenance Systems for Community, Special-Limited Community, Special-Closed Systems, Special- 

Parenteral/Enteral, and Nuclear Permits 
64B 16-28.141 Requirements for an Automated Pharmacy System in a Community Pharmacy 
64B 16-28.150 Record Maintenance Systems for Institutional and Animal Shelter Permits (Repealed) 
64B 16-28.201 Definitions (Repealed) 
64B16-28.202 Closing of a Pharmacy; Transfer of Prescription Files 
64B16-28.2021 Change of Ownership 
64B16-28.203 Transfer of Medicinal Drugs; Change of Ownership; Closing of a Pharmacy 
64B16-28.301 Destruction of Controlled Substances Institutional Pharmacies 
64B16-28.303 Destruction of Controlled Substances All Permittees (excluding Nursing Homes) 
64B 16-28.402 Labels and Labeling of Medicinal Drugs Community Pharmacy Permit (Repealed) 
64B 16-28.404 Regulation of Daily Operating Hours (Repealed) 
64B 16-28.450 Centralized Prescription Filling, Delivering and Returning 
64B16-28.451 Pharmacy Common Database 
64B 16-28.501 Institutional Permit Consultant Pharmacist of Record 
64B 16-28.502 Class I Institutional Permit and Class II Institutional Permit Labels and Labeling of Medicinal Drugs for 

Inpatients of a Nursing Home 
64B16-28.503 Transmission of Starter Dose Prescriptions for Patients in Class I Institutional or Modified II B Facilities 
64B16-28.602 Institutional Class II Dispensing. 
64B 16-28.6021 Institutional Class II Pharmacy Emergency Department Dispensing 
64B 16-28.603 Class II Institutional Pharmacy Operating Hours 
64B 16-28.604 Class II Institutional Pharmacy Department Security 
64B 16-28.605 Class II Institutional Pharmacies Automated Distribution and Packaging 
64B16-28.606 Remote Medication Order Processing for Class II Institutional Pharmacies 
64B16-28.607 Automated Pharmacy System— Long-Term Care, Hospice, and Prison 
64B16-28.702 Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies 
64B16-28.800 Special Pharmacies 
64B16-28.810 Special Pharmacy— Limited Community Permit 



64B 16-28.820 Sterile Products and Special Parenteral/Enteral Compounding 
64B16-28.830 Special Closed System Pharmacy 
64B16-28.840 Special Non Resident (Mail Service) 
64B16-28.850 Special Pharmacy ESRD 
64B 16-28.860 Special Pharmacy Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope Permit 
64B 16-28.870 Special-ALF 
64B16-28.900 Definitions Nuclear Pharmacy 
64B 16-28.901 Nuclear Pharmacy General Requirements 
64B 16-28.902 Nuclear Pharmacy Minimum Requirements 
64B 16-28.903 Training Qualifications (Repealed) 
64B16-28.904 Nuclear Pharmacist Continuing Education (Repealed) 

64B16-28.1O1 Prescription Area Accessible to Inspection. 
(1) The prescription department compounding room or any other place where prescriptions are compounded, filled, processed, 

accepted, dispensed, or stored in each pharmacy shall be so situated and located that authorized agents and employees of the 

Department or other persons authorized by law to enter and inspect, can observe and survey the confines of said department, room or 
area and can enter into said department, room or area after themselves, for the purpose of inspection at a reasonable hour 
or when the practice of the profession of pharmacy is being carried on, as defined in Section 465 .003, F.S., without having been 
previously detained or announced. Such inspection may be routinely conducted at any time by authorized agents of the Department 
to determine whether Chapter 465, F.S., or provisions of these rules have been violated or for other lawful purposes, and need not be 
in response to a complaint filed with the Department. There shall be a minimum of one (1) inspection per year except as otherwise 
provided herein or directed by the Board. 

(a) A pharmacy shall be inspected twice during the first year of operation. 
(b) A pharmacy which has had passing inspections for the most current three years, and no discipline during the most current 

three years shall be inspected every two years. 

(c) A pharmacy which fails to obtain a passing inspection or which is disciplined during the two year inspection cycle will be 
inspected annually until it achieves passing inspections for the most current three years, and no discipline during the most current 
three years as set forth in this subsection. 

(2) Authorized agents and employees of the Department or other persons authorized by law shall have the right to inspect 
invoices, shipping tickets, or any other document pertaining to the transfer of drugs or drug preparations, from or to all pharmacies 
and a reasonable amount of time shall be allowed for said information to be made available. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.017, 465.022 FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, 11-2 -81, Formerly 21S-1.01, 21S- 

1.001, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.101, 61F10-28.101, 59X-28.101, Amended 5-4-05, 2-2-12. 

64B16-28.102 Sink and Running Water, Sufficient Space, Refrigeration, Sanitation, Equipment. 
There shall be provided for the prescription department of each pharmacy: 

(1) An adequate sink in workable condition and running water easily accessible to the prescription counter that shall be 
available during the hours when the prescription department is normally open for the business related to prescriptions. 

(2) Sufficient shelf, drawer or cabinet space for the neat and orderly storage of pharmaceutical stock, prescription containers, 
prescription labels, the required equipment, and all other items, articles or equipment stored therein and there shall be sufficient 
walking space and sufficient work counter space within each prescription department of said establishment so as to allow employees 
or pharmacists employed therein to adequately, safely, and accurately fulfill their duties related to prescriptions. 

(3) Adequate facilities for the proper storage of pharmaceuticals which require refrigeration, and such pharmaceuticals shall be 
stored therein, and in such manner as to preserve their therapeutic activity. 

(4) Adequate sanitation to insure the prescription department is operating under clean, sanitary, uncrowded, and healthy 
conditions. 

(5) The following items: 
(a) A current pharmacy reference compendium such as the United States Pharmacopoeia/National Formulary, the U.S. 

Dispensatory, USP DI, (United States Pharmacopoeia! Drug Information), the Remington Practice of Pharmacy, Facts and 
Comparisons or an equivalent thereof sufficient in scope to meet the professional practice needs of that pharmacy, and a current 





wrappers, drug carts, or compartments thereof, as well as a medication administration record (MAR) if a medication administration 
record is an integral part of the unit dose system. 

(d) "Radiopharmaceutical" means any substance defined as a drug in section 201(g)(1) of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic 
Act which exhibits spontaneous disintegration of unstable nuclei with the emission of nuclear particles or photons and includes any 
of those drugs intended to be made radioactive. This includes nonradioactive reagent kits and nuclide generators which are intended 
to be used in the preparation of any such substance, but does not include drugs which are carbon-containing compounds or 
potassium-containing compounds or potassium-containing salts which contain trace quantities of naturally occurring radionuclides. 

(e) "Serial number" means a prescription number or other unique number by which a particular prescription or drug package can 
be identified. 

(2) The label affixed to each container dispensed to a patient shall include: 
(a) Name and address of the pharmacy. 
(b) Date of dispensing. 
(c) Serial number. 
(d) Name of the patient or, if the patient is an animal, the name of the owner and the species of animal. 
(e) Name of the prescriber. 
(f) Name of the drug dispensed (except where the prescribing practitioner specifically requests that the name is to be withheld). 
(g) Directions for use. 
(h) Expiration date. 
(i) If the medicinal drug is a controlled substance, a warning that it is a crime to transfer the drug to another person. 
(3) The label on the immediate container of a repackaged product or a multiple unit prepackaged drug product shall include: 

(a) Brand or generic name. 
(b) Strength. 
(c) Dosage form. 

(d) Name of the manufacturer. 
(e) Expiration date. 
(f) Lot number: 
1. Manufacturer's lot number, or 
2. Number assigned by the dispenser or repackager which references the manufacturer's lot number. 
(4) A medicinal drug dispensed in a unit dose system by a pharmacist shall be accompanied by labeling. The requirement will 

be satisfied if, to the extent not included on the label, the unit dose system indicates clearly the name of the resident or patient, the 
prescription number or other means utilized for readily retrieving the medication order, the directions for use, and the prescriber's 
name. 

(5) A unit dose system shall provide a method for the separation and identification of drugs for the individual resident or patient. 
(6) A customized patient medication package may be utilized if: 

(a) The consent of the patient or the patient's agent has been secured, and 
(b) The label includes: 
1. Name, address and telephone number of the pharmacy. 
2. Serial number for the customized medication package and a separate serial number for each medicinal drug dispensed. 
3. Date of preparation of the customized patient medication package. 
4. Patient's name. 
5. Name of each prescriber. 
6. Directions for use and any cautionary statements required for each medicinal drug. 
7. Storage instructions. 
8. Name, strength, quantity and physical description of each drug product. 
9. A beyond use date that is not more than 60 days from the date of preparation of the customized patient medication package 

but shall not be later than any appropriate beyond use date for any medicinal drug included in the customized patient medication 
package. 

(c) The customized patient medication package can be separated into individual medicinal drug containers, then each container 
shall identify the medicinal drug product contained. 



(7) The label affixed to the immediate outer container shield of a radiopharmaceutical shall include: 
(a) Name and address of the pharmacy. 
(b) Name of the prescriber. 
(c) Date of the original dispensing. 
(d) The standard radiation symbol. 
(e) The words "Caution Radioactive Material." 

(0 Name of the procedure. 

(g) Prescription order number. 
(h) Radionuclide and chemical form. 

(i) Amount of radioactivity and the calibration date and time. 
(j) Expiration date and time. 
(k) If a liquid, the volume. 
(1) If a solid, the number of items or weight. 
(m) If a gas, the number of ampules or vials. 

(n) Molybdenum 99 content to the United States Pharmacopeia (UPS) limits. 
(o) Name of the patient or the words "Physician's Use Only." 
(8) The label affixed to the immediate inner container of a radiopharmaceutical to be distributed shall include: 

(a) The standard radiation symbol. 
(b) The words "Caution Radioactive Material." 
(c) Radionuclide and chemical form. 

(d) Name of the procedure. 
(e) Prescription order number of the radiopharmaceutical. 
(f) Name of the pharmacy. 
(9) The labeling on a carton or package containing a medicinal drug or product dispensed from an Extended Scope Renal 

Dialysis (ESRD) pharmacy shall include: 
(a) "Use as Directed" statement. 
(b) The name and address of the person to whom the products will be delivered. 
(c) Name of the prescriber. 
(d) Name and address of the ESRD pharmacy location from which the products were shipped. 
(e) Prescription number. 

(0 Any special instructions regarding delivery dates or locations. 

(g) Beyond use date or, if the medicinal drug or product is dispensed in an unopened sealed package, the manufacturer's 
expiration date. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1) FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, Amended 10- 

10-78, 9-18-84, 1-20-85, Formerly 21S-1.13, Amended 10-2 -88, Formerly 21S-1.013, Amended 7-31-91, 10-1 -92, 4-19-93, 7-12-93, Formerly 21S- 

28.108, 61F10-28. 108, 59X-28. 108, Amended 3-31-05. 

64B16-28.1081 Regulation of Daily Operating Hours. 
Any person who receives a community pharmacy permit pursuant to Section 465.018, F.S., and commences to operate such an 

establishment shall keep the prescription department of the establishment open for a minimum of forty (40) hours per week. The 
Board hereby approves exceptions to the requirements noted above and permits closing of the prescription department for the 
following holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July (Independence Day), Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving, 
Christmas and any bona fide religious holiday provided that notice of such closing is given in a sign as set forth herein. A sign in 
block letters not less than one inch in height stating the hours the prescription department is open each day shall be displayed either 
at the main entrance of the establishment or at or near the place where prescriptions are dispensed in a prominent place that is in 

clear and unobstructed view. The prescription department manager may petition the Board in writing to operate the prescription 
department for less than forty (40) hours per week, but no less than twenty (20) hours per week. Prior to approving reduced hours, 
the Board may require the prescription department manager to appear before the Board to explain in detail the services that will be 
performed. Any pharmacy open less than 40 hours shall have a policy and procedure that provides a mechanism for access to a 



pharmacist during the time the pharmacy is not open for the remainder of the forty hour week. Any pharmacy that is not open 40 
hours a week, must post the days and hours that the pharmacy is open and the information for after-hours access. Any pharmacy 
open less than 40 hours shall also have a policy and procedure for transferring a prescription pursuant to Rule 64B16-27.105, 
F.A.C., or receiving an emergency dose pursuant to Section 465.0275, F.S. during the time the pharmacy is open less than 40 hours. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0220) FS. History—New 4-10-05, Amended 2-1-12. 

64B16-28.109 Prescription Department; Padlock; Sign: "Prescription Department Closed." 
(1) The prescription department of any community pharmacy permittee shall be considered closed whenever the establishment 

is open and a pharmacist is not present and on duty. A sign with bold letters not less than two (2) inches in width and height, shall be 
displayed in a prominent place in the prescription department so that it may easily be read by patrons of that establishment. The sign 
shall contain the following language: "Prescription Department Closed." 

(2) The term "not present and on duty" shall not be construed to prevent a pharmacist from exiting the prescription department 
for the purpose of consulting or responding to inquiries or providing assistance to patients or customers, attending to personal 
hygiene needs, taking a meal break pursuant to Rule 64B16-27.1001, F.A.C., or performing any other function for which the 
pharmacist is responsible, provided that such activities are conducted in a manner consistent with the pharmacist's responsibility to 

provide pharmacy services. 
(3) At all times when the prescription department is closed, either because of the absence of a pharmacist or for any other 

reason, it shall be separated from the remainder of the establishment by partition or other means of enclosure, thereby preventing 
access to the prescription department by persons not licensed in Florida to practice the profession of pharmacy. 

(4) The partition or other means of enclosure shall be securely locked or padlocked and only a pharmacist shall have the means 
to gain access to the prescription department. 

(5) Whenever the prescription department of any community pharmacy establishment is closed, no person other than a 

pharmacist shall enter, be permitted to enter or remain in the prescription department. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Amended 8-20-63, 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Amended 5-6-80, Formerly 21S-I.14, 21S-I.014, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.109, 61F10-28.109, 59X-28.109, Amended 6-15-98, 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.11O Outdated Pharmaceuticals. 
Persons qualified to do so shall examine the stock of the prescription department of each pharmacy at a minimum interval of four 
months, and shall remove all deteriorated pharmaceuticals, or pharmaceuticals which bear upon the container an expiration date 
which date has been reached, and under no circumstances will pharmaceuticals or devices which bear upon the container an 
expiration date which has been reached be sold or dispensed to the public. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, Formerly 21S- 

1.1 21S-I.0I 21S-28.110, 61F10-28. 110, 59X-28. 110. 

64B16-28.111 Storage of Equipment. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Repromulgated 12-18-74, Formerly 21S-1 .1 9, 21S-1.019, 

21S-28. 111, 61F10-28. 111, 59X-28. 111, Repealed 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.1 12 Violations. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1) FS. History—New 8-20-63, Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Formerly 21S-1.23, 21S-1.023, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.112, 61F10-28.112, 59X-28.112, Repealed 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.113 Permits; Single Entity; Single Location. 
A Board of Pharmacy permit shall be issued only to a single entity at a single location. The service provided by the permit shall be 
consistent with the issued permit. A single location shall be defined as: 

(1) A contiguous area under the control of the permit holder. For purposes of this section, a public thoroughfare will be 
considered to have not broken the area of contiguity; and 



(2) An area not more than one-half mile from the central location of the permit. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003(1 0)(a), 465.018, 465.019, 465.0193, 465.0196 FS. History—New 1 -30-96, 

Formerly 59X-28.113. 

64B16-28.1135 Change of Ownership. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003 (1 1) (a), 465.018, 465.019, 465.0193, 465.0196, 465.022(7) FS. History— 

New 4-19-00, Amended 1-2-02, Transferred to 64B16-28.2021. 

64B16-28.114 Prescription Refills. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.016(1), 465.022, 465.022(1) (a), 893.04 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—New 12-18-74, Formerly 

21S-1.28, 21S-1.028, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.114, 61F10-28.114, 59X-28.114, Amended 2-4-02, 7-1-02, Repealed 10-5-09. 

64B16-28.118 Unit Dose and Customized Patient Medication Package Returns by In-patients. 
No pharmacist shall place into the stock of any pharmacy permittee any part of any prescription, compounded or dispensed, which is 

returned by a patient except under the following conditions: 
(1) In a closed drug delivery system in which unit dose or customized patient medication packages are dispensed to in-patients, 

the unused medication may be returned to the pharmacy for redispensing only if each unit dose or customized patient medication 
package is individually sealed and if each unit dose or the unit dose system, or the customized patient medication package container 
or the customized patient medication package unit of which it is clearly a part is labeled with the name of the drug, dosage strength, 
manufacturer's control number, and expiration date, if any. 

(2) In the case of controlled substances, as it is allowed by Federal Law. 

(3) A "unit dose system" to which this rule applies means a system wherein all individually sealed unit doses are physically 
connected as a unit. For purpose of this section, a product in an unopened, sealed, manufacture's container is deemed to be a unit 
dose package. 

(4) A "customized patient medication package" to which this rule applies means a system wherein all USP approved multi-dose 
units are physically connected and are referred to as a container. The use of customized patient medication packages must comply 
with the provisions of subsection 64B16-28.108(5), F.A.C. 

(5) A "closed drug delivery system" to which this rule applies is a system in which the actual control of the unit dose or 

customized patient medication package is maintained by the facility rather than by the individual patient. 
(6) All pharmacies utilizing unit dose or customized patient medication packages shall address specific policies and procedures 

regarding their preparation and use in their Policy and Procedures Manual. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.016(1) (1) FS. History—New 11-10-80, Formerly 21S-1 .3 6, 21S-1.036, Amended 

7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.118, 61F10-28.118, 59X-28.118, Amended 9-23-99, 7-1-02. 

64B16-28.119 Data Processing Systems in Pharmacy. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022, 465.026, 893.07 FS. History—New 9-21-83, Formerly 21S-1.38, 

21S-1.038, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.119, Amended 3-16-94, Formerly 61F10-28.119, 59X-28.119, Repealed 7-15-99. 

64B16-28.1 191 Unclaimed Prescriptions. 
Prescriptions that are unclaimed may be retained by a pharmacy and reused for a period up to one year from the date of filling; 
however, any product reaching the product's expiration date prior to one year or any product subject to a recall shall not be reused. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.0255 FS. Law Implemented 465.0255 FS. History—New 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.120 All Permits — Storage of Legend Drugs; Prepackaging. 
(1) All medicinal drugs or drug preparations as defined by Section 465.003(8), F.S., shall be stored: 
(a) Within the confines of the prescription department of a community pharmacy permittee as defined in Section 465.018, F.S. 

(b) In a Class II Institutional pharmacy as defined by Section 465.019(2)(b), F.S., within the confines of the pharmacy provided, 



however, that those medicinal drugs established by the consultant pharmacist as supportive to treatment procedures such as medical 
drugs, surgical, obstetrical, diagnostic, etc., may be permitted to be stored in those areas where such treatment is conducted 
consistent with proper control procedures as provided by the policy and procedure manual of the pharmacy. 

(2) All medicinal drugs or drug preparations as defined in Section 465.003(8), F.S., within Class I Institutional permittees as 

defined in Section 465.019(2)(a), F.S., and Special ALF Permit 64B16-28.870, F.A.C., shall: 

(a) Be administered from individual prescription containers to the individual patient; and 
(b) Be prohibited within the confines of Class I Institutional pharmacies unless obtained upon a proper prescription and properly 

labeled in accordance with Chapter 499, F.S., and the rules and regulations contained in Chapter 59A-4, F.A.C., incorporated by 
reference and effective August 1, 2006, pertaining to the licensure of nursing homes and related facilities. 

(3) Prepackaging of medication, whether a part of a unit dose system or a part of a multiple dose drug distribution system in an 
extended care facility or hospital holding a valid Class II Institutional pharmacy permit, must be done in accordance with procedures 
set up by the consultant pharmacist of record in the policy and procedure manual; and in the case of a pharmacy holding a valid 
community pharmacy permit must be done in accordance with procedures set up by the prescription department manager. 

(4) Medicinal drugs and proprietary preparations as identified above that are stored in treatment areas must be accessible only 
to licensed staff (pharmacists, nurses, physicians, advanced registered nurse practitioners, physician assistants, respiratory and 
physical therapist, radiology technicians and registered pharmacy technicians, etc.) in accordance with their license, practice act, or 
to other personnel specifically authorized by the institution. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 435.019(2), 465.003(7), 465.022 FS. History—New 9-18-84, Formerly 21S-1. 44, 

21S-1.044, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.120, 61F10-28.120, 59X-28.120, Amended 2-8-07, 8-16-10. 

64B16-28.121 Permit Fees. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—New 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28. 121, 61F10-28. 121, 59X- 

28.121, Amended 10-30-00, Repealed 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.130 Transmission of Prescription Orders. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 'S. Law Implemented 465.022, 465.026, 893.07 'S. History—New 3-16-94, Formerly 61F10- 

28.130, 59X-28.130, Repealed 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.140 Record Maintenance Systems for Community, Special-Limited Community, Special-Closed Systems, 
Special-Parenteral/Enteral, and Nuclear Permits. 

(1) Requirements for records maintained in a data processing system. 
(a) The pharmacy must comply with the provisions of2l C.F.R. Section 1304.04 (a regulation of the Federal Drug Enforcement 

Administration), which is hereby incorporated by reference as of March 1, 1998, when such is applicable to operate such a data 
processing system if any controlled substances (as that term is used in Ch. 893, F.S.) are dispensed from the pharmacy. 

(b) Any pharmacy using a data processing system must meet the requirements of 21 C.F.R. Section 1306.22, which is hereby 
incorporated by reference as of March 1, 1998. 

(c) If a pharmacy's data processing system is not in compliance with this subsection, the pharmacy must maintain a manual 
recordkeeping system as specified in Rule 64Bl6-27.800, F.A.C., and Section 893.07, F.S. 

(d) Original prescriptions, including prescriptions received as provided for in Rule 64B16-28.130, F.A.C., Transmission of 
Prescription Orders, shall be reduced to a hard copy if not received in written form. All original prescriptions shall be retained for a 

period of not less than two years from date of last filling. To the extent authorized by 21 C.F.R. Section 1304.04, a pharmacy may, 

in lieu of retaining the actual original prescriptions, use an electronic imaging recordkeeping system, provided such system is 

capable of capturing, storing, and reproducing the exact image of the prescription, including the reverse side of the prescription if 
necessary, and that such image be retained for a period of no less than two years from the date of last filling. 

(e) Original prescriptions shall be maintained in a two or three file system as specified in 21 C.F.R. 1304.04(h). 

(0 Requirements for back-up systems. 
1. The pharmacy shall maintain a back-up copy of information stored in the data processing system using disk, tape or other 

electronic back-up system and update this back-up copy on a regular basis, at least weekly, to assure that data is not lost due to 



system failure. 
2. Data processing systems shall have a workable (electronic) data retention system which can produce an audit trail of drug 

usage for the preceding two years as specified in Rule 64B16-27.800, F.A.C. 
(g) Change or discontinuance of a data processing system. 
1. Records of dispensing. A pharmacy that changes or discontinues use of a data processing system must: 

a. Transfer the records of dispensing to the new data processing system; or 
b. Purge the records of dispensing to a printout which contains the same information required on the daily printout as specified 

in paragraph (3)(b) of this section. The information on this hard-copy printout shall be sorted and printed by prescription number and 
list each dispensing for this prescription chronologically. 

2. Other records. A pharmacy that changes or discontinues use of a data processing system must: 
a. Transfer the records to the new data processing system; or 
b. Purge the records to a printout which contains all of the information required on the original document. 
3. Maintenance of purged records. Information purged from a data processing system must be maintained by the pharmacy for 

two years from the date of initial entry into the data processing system. 
(h) Loss of Data. The prescription department manager shall report to the Board in writing any significant loss of information 

from the data processing system within 10 days of discovery of the loss. 
(2) All transfers of prescriptions must be strictly in accordance with the provisions of Section 465.026, F.S., and Rule 64B16- 

27.105, F.A.C. 
(3) Records of dispensing. 
(a) Each time a prescription drug order is filled or refilled, a record of such dispensing shall be entered into the data processing 

system. 
(b) The data processing system shall have the capacity to produce a daily hard-copy printout of all original prescriptions 

dispensed and refilled. This hard copy printout shall contain the following information: 
1. Unique identification number of the prescription; 
2. Date of dispensing; 
3. Patient name; 
4. Prescribing practitioner's name; 
5. Name and strength of the drug product actually dispensed, if generic name, the brand name or manufacturer of drug 

dispensed; 
6. Quantity dispensed; 
7. Initials or an identification code of the dispensing pharmacist; and 
8. If not immediately retrievable via CRT display, the following shall also be included on the hard-copy printout: 
a. Patient's address; 
b. Prescribing practitioner's address; 
c. Practitioner's DEA registration number, if the prescription drug order is for a controlled substance. 
d. Quantity prescribed, if different from the quantity dispensed; 
e. Date of issuance of the prescription drug order, if different from the date of dispensing; and 
f. Total number of refills dispensed to date for that prescription drug order. 
(c) The daily hard-copy printout shall be produced within 72 hours of the date on which the prescription drug orders were 

dispensed and shall be maintained in a separate file at the pharmacy. Records of controlled substances shall be readily retrievable 
from records of non-controlled substances. 

(d) Each individual pharmacist who dispenses or refills a prescription drug order shall verify that the data indicated on the daily 
hard-copy printout is correct, by dating and signing such document in the same manner as signing a check or legal document (e.g., 
J.H. Smith, or John H. Smith) within seven days from the date of dispensing. 

(e) In lieu of producing the printout described in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section, the pharmacy shall maintain a log book 
in which each individual pharmacist using the data processing system shall sign a statement each day, attesting to the fact that the 
information entered into the data processing system that day has been reviewed by him or her and is correct as entered. Such log 
book shall be maintained at the pharmacy employing such a system for a period of two years after the date of dispensing provided, 
however, that the data processing system can produce the hard-copy printout on demand by an authorized agent of the Department 



of Health. If no printer is available on site, the hard-copy printout shall be available within 48 hours with a certification by the 
individual providing the printout, which states that the printout is true and correct as of the date of entry and such information has 

not been altered, amended or modified. 
(f) The prescription department manager and the permit holder are responsible for the proper maintenance of such records and 

responsible that such data processing system can produce the records outlined in this section and that such system is in compliance 
with this subsection. 

(g) Failure to provide the records set out in this section, either on site or within 48 hours for whatever reason, constitutes failure 
to keep and maintain records. 

(h) In the event that a pharmacy which uses a data processing system experiences system downtime, the following is applicable; 
1. An auxiliary procedure shall ensure that refills are authorized by the original prescription drug order and that the maximum 

number of refills has not been exceeded or that authorization from the prescribing practitioner has been obtained prior to dispensing 
a refill; and 

2. All of the appropriate data shall be retained for on-line data entry as soon as the system is available for use again. 
(4) Compounding records. A written record shall be maintained for each batchlsub-batch of a compounded product under the 

provisions of Rule 64B16-27.700, F.A.C. This record shall include: 
(a) Date of compounding. 
(b) Control number for each batchlsub-batch of a compounded product. This may be the manufacture's lot number or new 

numbers assigned by the pharmacist. If the number is assigned by the pharmacist, the pharmacist shall also record the original 
manufacture's lot number and expiration dates. If the original numbers and expiration dates are not known, the pharmacy shall 
record the source and acquisition date of the component. 

(c) A complete formula for the compounded product maintained in a readily retrievable form including methodology and 
necessary equipment. 

(d) A signature or initials of the pharmacist or pharmacy technician performing the compounding. 
(e) A signature or initials of the pharmacist responsible for supervising pharmacy technicians involved in the compounding 

process. 

(0 The name(s) of the manufacturer(s) of the raw materials used. 
(g) The quantity in units of finished products or grams of raw materials. 
(h) The package size and number of units prepared. 
(i) The name of the patient who received the particular compounded product. 
(5) Authorization of additional refills. Practitioner authorization for additional refills of a prescription drug order shall be noted 

as follows: 
(a) On the daily hard-copy printout; or 
(b) Via the CRT display. 
(6) Any other records, policy and procedure manuals, or reference materials which are not specifically required by statute or 

rule to be kept in a hard copy may be kept in a readily retrievable data processing system which complies with the provisions of 
subparagraph (1)(f)1. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003 (14), 465.022, 465.026, 893.07 FS. History—New 3-16-94, 

Formerly 61F10-28.140, Amended 3-12-9 7, 6-4-97, Formerly 59X-28.140, Amended 10-29-9 7, 6-15-98, 11-11-98, 10-15-01. 

64B16-28.141 Requirements for an Automated Pharmacy System in a Community Pharmacy. 
(1) Definitions. "Automated pharmacy system" means a mechanical system, located within or adjacent to the prescription 

department, that performs operations or activities, other than compounding or administration, relative to storage, packaging, 
dispensing, or distribution of medication, and which collects, controls, and maintains all transaction information. 

(2) General Requirements. A pharmacy may use an automated pharmacy system provided that: 

(a) The pharmacy develops and maintains a policy and procedure manual that includes: 
1. The type or name of the system including a serial number or other identifying nomenclature. 
2. A method to ensure security of the system to prevent unauthorized access. Such method may include the use of electronic 

passwords, biometric identification (optic scanning or fingerprint) or other coded identification. 
3. A process of filling and stocking the system with drugs; an electronic or hard copy record of medication filled into the system 



including the product identification, lot number, and expiration date. 
4. A method of identifying all the registered pharmacy interns or registered pharmacy technicians involved in the dispensing 

process. 
5. Compliance with a Continuous Quality Improvement Program. 
6. A method to ensure that patient confidentiality is maintained. 
7. A process to enable the prescription department manager or designee to revoke, add, or change access at any time. 
(b) The system ensures that each prescription is dispensed in compliance with the definition of dispense and the practice of the 

profession of pharmacy. 
(c) The system shall maintain a readily retrievable electronic record to identifSi all pharmacists, registered pharmacy technicians, 

or other personnel involved in the dispensing of a prescription. 
(d) The system shall provide the ability to comply with product recalls generated by the manufacturer, distributor, or pharmacy. 

The system shall have a process in place to isolate affected lot numbers including an intermix of drug product lot numbers. 
(3) Additional Requirements for Patient Accessed Automated Pharmacy Systems. A pharmacy may use a patient accessed 

automated pharmacy system, provided that: 

(a) Meets the requirements in subsection (2) above. 
(b) The stocking or restocking of a medicinal drug shall only be completed by a Florida pharmacist, except as provided in 

paragraph (c) below. 
(c) If the automated pharmacy system uses removable cartridges or container to store the drug, the stocking or restocking of the 

cartridges or containers may occur at a licensed repackaging facility and be sent to the provider pharmacy to be loaded by personnel 
designated by the pharmacist if: 

1. A Florida pharmacist verifies the cartridge or container has been properly filled and labeled. 
2. The individual cartridge or container is transported to the provider pharmacy in a secure, tamper-evident container. 
3. The automated pharmacy system uses a bar code verification, electronic verification, weight verification, radio frequency 

identification (RFID) or similar process to ensure that the cartridge or container is accurately loaded into the automated pharmacy 
system. 

4. The Florida pharmacist verifying the filling and labeling is responsible if the cartridge or container is stocked or restocked 
incorrectly by the personnel designated to load the cartridges or containers. 

(d) The automated pharmacy system must use at least two separate verifications, such as bar code verification, electronic 
verification, weight verification, radio frequency identification (RFID) or similar process to ensure that the proper medication is 

being dispensed from the automated system. 
(e) The medication shall bear a patient specific label that complies with Rule 64B16-28.108, F.A.C. 

(0 The record of transactions with the patient accessed automated pharmacy system shall be available to authorized agents of 
the Department of Health. The record of transactions shall include: 

1. Name of the patient. 
2. Name, strength, and dosage form of the drug product dispensed. 
3. Quantity of drug dispensed. 
4. Date and time of dispensing. 
5. Name of provider pharmacy. 
6. Prescription number. 
7. Name of prescribing practitioner. 
8. Identity of the pharmacist who approved the prescription or order. 
9. Identity of the person to whom the drug was released. 
(4) The Florida pharmacist responsible for filling, verifying, or loading the automated pharmacy system shall be responsible for 

her or his individual action. 
(5) A prescription dispensed pursuant to the requirements of this rule shall be deemed to have been certified by the pharmacist. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0 18, 465.022 FS. History—New 11-29-04, Amended 12-30-0 7, 1-1-10. 

64B16-28.15O Record Maintenance Systems for Institutional and Animal Shelter Permits. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 465.022, 465.019, 465.02 6, 893.07, 828.055 FS. History—New 



4-12-95, Formerly 59X-28. 150, Repealed 5-3-05. 

64B16-28.201 Definitions. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022, 465. 022(1)(g) P'S. History—New 12-26-79, Amended 4-28-83, 4-30- 

85, Formerly 215-1 6.01, 215-16.001, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 215-28.201, 61F10-28.201, 59X-28.201, Repealed 4-5-05. 

64B16-28.202 Closing of a Pharmacy; Transfer of Prescription Files. 
(1) The term "prescription files" as used herein shall mean the drug dispensing records of a pharmacy which shall include all 

orders for drugs or medicinal supplies as defined by Section 465.003(7), F.S., inclusive of dispensing records for medicinal drugs 
listed within the provisions of Section 893.03, F.S., issued by a duly licensed practitioner, which serve to transfer possession of 
medicinal drugs from the pharmacy to the ultimate consumer. 

(2) The term "closing of a pharmacy" as used herein shall mean the cessation or termination of professional and business 
activities within a pharmacy for which a permit has been issued under Chapter 465, F.S. 

(3) Prior to closure of a pharmacy the permittee shall notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing as to the effective date of closure, 
and shall: 

(a) Return the pharmacy permit to the Board of Pharmacy office or arrange with the local Bureau of Investigative Services of 
the Department to have the pharmacy permit returned to the Board of Pharmacy; 

(b) Advise the Board of Pharmacy which permittee is to receive the prescription files; 
(4) On the date of closure of a pharmacy the former permittee shall: 

(a) Physically deliver the prescription files to a pharmacy operating within reasonable proximity of the pharmacy being closed 
and within the same locality. This delivery of prescription files may occur prior to the return of the pharmacy permit to the Board of 
Pharmacy office; and 

(b) Affix a prominent sign to the front entrance of the pharmacy advising the public of the new location of the former 
permittee's prescription files or otherwise provide a means by which to advise the public of the new location of their prescription 
files. 

(5) After the closing of a pharmacy as defined herein, the custody of the prescription files of the pharmacy shall be transferred 
to the new permittee, unless the former permittee and the new permittee inform the Board in writing that custody of the prescription 
files have been or are to be transferred to a pharmacy other than the new permittee. 

(6) A pharmacy receiving custody of prescription files from another pharmacy shall maintain the delivered prescriptions in 

separate files so as to prevent intermingling with the transferee pharmacy's prescription files. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.022 (1) (g) FS. Law Implemented 465.022 (1) (g) FS. History—New 12-26-79, Formerly 215-1 6.02, 215-16.002, Amended 

7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.202, 61F10-28.202, 59X-28.202, Amended 4-5-05. 

64B16-28.2021 Change of Ownership. 
(1) A pharmacy permit is not transferable. Upon the sale of an existing pharmacy, a new application must be filed. In those 

cases where the permit is held by a corporation, the transfer of all the stock of said corporation to another person or entity does not 
constitute a change of ownership, provided that the initial corporation holding the permit continues to exist. 

(2) A change in ownership (and issuance of a new permit number) requires that new records be started and old records closed. 
The process for closing a pharmacy, including the transfer of prescription files and medicinal drugs, as outlined in Rules 64B 16- 

28.202 and 64B16-28.203, F.A.C., must be followed for the old permit. If the old permit has controlled substances, the new permit 
must record an "opening inventory" for DEA purposes. Both the new permit and the old permit must keep appropriate records for 
two (2) years for the transfer of legend drugs and controlled substances. 

(3) A change in the company or person who leases the building where the permit is housed or a change in the management 
company which contracts with the owner of the permit for the operation of the permit does not constitute a change in ownership. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003(1 1)(a), 465.018, 465.019, 465.0193, 465. 0196, 465.022(7) FS. History— 

New 4-19-00, Amended 1-2-02, Formerly 64B16-28.1135, Amended 4-5-05. 



64B16-28.203 Transfer of Medicinal Drugs; Change of Ownership; Closing of a Pharmacy. 
Ownership of medicinal drugs, including those medicinal drugs within the provisions of Section 893.03, F.S., may be transferred to 

a new owner upon the change of ownership of a pharmacy, as defined in Rule 64B16-28.2021, F.A.C., or upon the closing of a 

pharmacy, as defined in Rule 64B 16-28.2021, F.A.C. The transferee entity acquiring ownership shall be authorized to prescribe, 
dispense or distribute such drugs. The transferor pharmacy shall provide the Florida Board of Pharmacy with the following 
information: 

(1) The name, address, pharmacy permit number and D.E.A. registration number of the transferor pharmacy. 
(2) The name, address, permit number, D.E.A. registration number (if available), and authorized business activity of the 

transferee entity. 
(3) The date on which the transfer will occur. 
(4) A complete inventory of all medicinal drugs within the provisions of Section 893.03, F.S., as of the date of transfer. If the 

medicinal drug is listed in Schedule II, the transferor shall make an exact count or measure of the contents. If the medicinal drugs are 

listed in Schedule III, IV, or V, the transferor shall make an estimated count or measure of the contents, unless the container holds 
more than 1,000 tablets or capsules, in which case an exact count of the contents shall be made. This inventory shall serve as the 

final inventory of the permittee transferor and the transfer inventory of the transferee entity. The transferor and transferee shall each 
retain a copy of the inventory in their records and shall provide the Board of Pharmacy with a copy of such inventory. Transfer of 
any controlled substance in Schedule II shall require the use of order form, D.E.A. form number 222. 

(5) Unless the permittee-transferor is informed by the Board of Pharmacy or the regional D.E.A. Administrator prior to the date 
on which the transfer was stated to occur, that the transfer may not occur, the permittee-transferor may proceed with the transfer. 

(6) On the date of transfer of the medicinal drugs, all records required to be kept by the permittee-transferor of the transferred 
drugs which are listed in Section 893.03, F.S., shall be transferred to the permittee-transferor. Responsibility for the accuracy of 
records prior to the date of transfer remains with the permittee-transferor, but responsibility for custody and maintenance shall be 
upon the permittee-transferee. It is the responsibility of the permittee-transferor to return all unused Schedule II order forms (D.E.A. 
form no. 222) to the regional D.E.A. office. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465. 022 (1) (g) FS. Law Implemented 465. 022(1)(g) FS. History—New 12-26-79, Formerly 21S-16. 03, 21S-1 6.003, 

21S-28.203, 61F10-28.203, 59X-28.203, Amended 4-5-05. 

64B16-28.301 Destruction of Controlled Substances Institutional Pharmacies. 
(1) Controlled substances that have been dispensed and not used by the patient shall not be returned to the pharmacy and shall 

be securely stored by the nursing home until destroyed. 
(2) A document must be completed showing the name and quantity of the drug, strength and dosage form, patient's name, 

prescription number and name of the institution. This documentation, at the time of destruction, shall be witnessed and signed by the 
consultant pharmacist, director of nursing, and the administrator or his designee, which may include a licensed physician, 
pharmacists, mid-level practitioner, or nurse. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022, 465.019 FS. History—New 4-21-8 7, Formerly 21S-19.001, Amended 7-31- 

91, Formerly 21S-28.301, 61F10-28.301, Amended 1-30-96, Formerly 59X-28.301, Amended 7-21-09. 

64B16-28.303 Destruction of Controlled Substances All Permittees (excluding Nursing Homes). 
(1) Controlled substances that cannot be retained as usable shall be securely stored in the prescription department of the 

permittee pharmacy until destroyed. 
(2) Permittees are required to complete a United States Drug Enforcement Administration (D.E.A.) Form 41. This form, at the 

time of destruction, shall be witnessed and signed by the prescription department manager or the consultant pharmacist of record and 
D.E.A. agent, or a Department inspector. This method of destruction does not require prior approval from D.E.A., but does require 
that a copy of the completed and witnessed D.E.A. Form 41 be mailed to D.E.A. immediately after destruction. 

(3) Another method of destruction shall be conducted by at least two persons who are either a licensed pharmacist, physician or 
nurse, or a sworn law enforcement officer or any combination thereof, to serve as the witnesses. A copy of the completed D.E.A. 
Form 41 and a letter providing the proposed date of destruction, the proposed method of destruction and the names and titles of the 
proposed witnesses must be received by D.E.A. at least two weeks prior to the proposed date of destruction which shall constitute a 

request for destruction. The drugs may not be destroyed until D.E.A. grants approval of the request for destruction. A copy of the 



completed and witnessed D.E.A. Form 41 shall be mailed to D.E.A. immediately after destruction. 
(4) In lieu of destruction on the premises, controlled substances may also be shipped to reverse distributors for destruction in 

conformity with federal guidelines. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022, 465.018 FS. History—New 4-21-8 7, Formerly 21S-19.003, Amended 7-31- 

91, Formerly 21S-28.303, 61F10-28.303, Amended 1-30-96, Formerly 59X-28.303, Amended 2-5-07, 10-27-09, 2-1-12. 

64B16-28.402 Labels and Labeling of Medicinal Drugs — Community Pharmacy Permit. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1), 465.0255 FS. History—New 7-3-91, Formerly 21S-28.402, Amended 

12-2 7-93, Formerly 6110-28.402, 59X-28.402, Amended 9-1 7-97, Repealed 5-11-05. 

64B16-28.404 Regulation of Daily Operating Hours. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1) FS. History—New 8-20-65, Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Amended 5-6-80, 3-31-81, Formerly 21S-1.24, Amended 7-14-88, Formerly 21S-1.024, Amended 7-31-91, 3-15-92, Formerly 21S-28.404, 

61F10-28.404, Amended 9-21-94, Formerly 59X-28.404, 59X-28.404, Repealed 2-28-0 7. 

64B16-28.404 Regulation of Daily Operating Hours (Repealed). 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1) FS. History—New 8-20-65, Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Amended 5-6-80, 3-31-81, Formerly 21S-1.24, Amended 7-14-88, Formerly 21S-1.024, Amended 7-31-91, 3-15-92, Formerly 21S-28.404, 61F10- 

28.404, Amended 9-21-94, Formerly 59X-28.404, 59X-28.404, Repealed 2-28-0 7. 

64B16-28.450 Centralized Prescription Filling, Delivering and Returning. 
(1) As used herein: 
(a) The term "originating pharmacy" means a pharmacy wherein the prescription which will be filled by the central fill 

pharmacy is initially presented; and 
(b) The term "central fill pharmacy" means a pharmacy which performs centralized prescription filling, delivering, and 

returning for one or more originating pharmacies. 
(2) Pharmacies acting as the central fill pharmacy must be authorized to dispense medications under the provisions of Chapter 

465, F.S., and the rules promulgated thereto. 
(3) A community pharmacy which acts as the central fill pharmacy and which notifies the Board that its pharmacy practice is 

limited only to such practice shall be exempt from the following rules: 
(a) Rule 64B16-28.l035, F.A.C., Patient Consultation Area; 
(b) The signage requirement of subsection 64B16-28.109(l), F.A.C.; and 
(c) Rule 64B16-28.l081, F.A.C., Regulation of Daily Operating Hours. 
(4) All central fill and originating pharmacies engaged in centralized prescription filling shall create and keep current a Policy 

and Procedure Manual which shall: 

(a) Be maintained at the locations of the central fill and originating pharmacies; 
(b) Include the information required in Sections 465 .0265(2)(a)-(f), F.S. 

(5) Delivery of medications. Delivery of medications must be made in a timely manner. The originating and central fill 
pharmacies shall each be identified on the prescription container. 

(a) Delivery by central fill pharmacy to ultimate consumer. A central fill pharmacy may deliver medications for an originating 
pharmacy to the ultimate consumer or the consumer's agent under the following conditions: 

1. The pharmacies are under the same ownership or have a written contract specifying the services to be provided by each 
pharmacy, the responsibilities of each pharmacy, and the manner in which each pharmacy will comply with federal and state laws, 
rules and regulations. 

2. The pharmacies shall have a pharmacist available 40 hours a week, either in person or via two-way communication 
technology, such as a telephone, to provide patient counseling. 

3. The pharmacies shall include a toll-free number that allows the patient to reach a pharmacist for the purposes of patient 
counseling. 



4. The pharmacies shall each be identified on the prescription container label. The originating pharmacy shall be identified with 
pharmacy name and address. The central fill pharmacy may be identified by a code available at the originating pharmacy. 

5. The central fill pharmacy shall only deliver via carrier to the ultimate consumer or the consumer's agent those medications 
which could have been delivered via carrier by the originating pharmacy. 

6. The central fill pharmacy shall not deliver to the ultimate consumer or consumer's agent substances listed as controlled 
substances under Chapter 893, F.S. 

(b) The delivery of a filled prescription by a central fill pharmacy to the ultimate consumer or the consumer's agent pursuant to 

a contract with an originating pharmacy shall not be considered dispensing within the definition set forth in Section 465.003(6), F.S. 

(c) Each pharmacist that performs a specific function within the processing of the prescription shall be responsible for any errors 
or omissions committed by that pharmacist during the performance of that specific fttnction. 

(6) The supplying and receiving pharmacy shall each be identified on the prescription container label. The receiving pharmacy 
shall be identified with pharmacy name and address. The supplying pharmacy may be identified by a code available at the receiving 
pharmacy. Prescription and labeling requirements for pharmacies participating in central prescription filling, delivering and 
returning: 

(a) Prescriptions may be transmitted electronically from an originating pharmacy to a central fill pharmacy including via 
facsimile. The originating pharmacy transmitting the prescription information must: 

1. Write the word "central fill" on the face of the original prescription and record the name, address, and DEA registration 
number if a controlled substance of the originating pharmacy to which the prescription has been transmitted and the name of the 
originating pharmacy's pharmacist transmitting the prescription, and the date of transmittal; 

2. Ensure all the information required to be on a prescription pursuant to Sections 456.0392 and 893.04, F. S., is transmitted to 

the central fill pharmacy either on the face of the prescription or in the electronic transmission of information; 
3. Indicate in the information transmitted the number of refills already dispensed and the number of refills remaining; 
4. Maintain the original prescription for a period of two years from the date the prescription was last refilled. 
5. Keep a record of receipt of the filled prescription, including the date of receipt, the method of delivery (private, common or 

contract carrier) and the name of the originating pharmacy's employee accepting delivery. 
(b) The central fill pharmacy receiving the transmitted prescription must: 

1. Keep a copy of the prescription if sent via facsimile, or an electronic record of all the information transmitted by the 
originating pharmacy, including the name, address, and DEA registration number, if a controlled substance, of the originating 
pharmacy transmitting the prescription; 

2. Keep a record of the date of receipt of the transmitted prescription, the name of the licensed pharmacist filling the 
prescription, and dates of filling or refilling of the prescription; 

3. Keep a record of the date the filled prescription was delivered to the originating pharmacy and the method of delivery 
(private, common or contract carrier). 

4. A central fill pharmacy's pharmacist filling a written or emergency oral prescription for a controlled substance listed in 

Schedule II shall affix to the package a label showing the date of filling, the receiving pharmacy's name and address, a unique 
identifier (i.e. the supplying pharmacy's DEA registration number) indicating the prescription was filled at the central fill pharmacy, 
the serial number of the prescription, the name of the patient, the name of the prescribing practitioner, and directions for use and 
cautionary statements, if any, contained in such prescription or required by law. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0265 FS. Law Implemented 465.0030 6), 465.0265 FS. History—New 9-23-03, Amended 7-27-04, 4-28-08. 

64B16-28.451 Pharmacy Common Database. 
(1) A pharmacy licensed under this chapter may perform prescription drug processing for other pharmacies, provided that all 

pharmacies are under common ownership, utilize a common database, and are properly licensed, permitted or registered in this state 
or another state. Nothing in this subsection shall prohibit a pharmacist employee of said pharmacies who is licensed in Florida or in 
another state from remotely accessing the pharmacy's electronic database from outside the pharmacy in order to process 
prescriptions, provided the pharmacy establishes controls to protect the privacy and security of confidential records. 

(2) Prescription drug processing shall include the following: 
(a) Receiving, interpreting, or clarifying a prescription; 
(b) Entering prescription data into the pharmacy's record; 



(c) Verifying or validating a prescription; 
(d) Performing prospective drug review as defined by the Board; 
(e) Obtaining refill and substitution authorizations; 
(f) Interpreting or acting on clinical data; 

(g) Performing therapeutic interventions; 
(h) Providing drug information concerning a patient's prescription; and 
(i) Providing patient counseling. 
(3) Each pharmacist that performs a specific ffinction within the prescription drug processing process via use of a common 

database shall be responsible for any errors or omissions committed by that pharmacist during the performance of that specific 
fttnction. 

(4) Each pharmacy performing prescription drug processing pursuant to this section must maintain a policy and procedure 
manual, which shall be made available to the Board or its agent upon request. The policy and procedures manual shall include the 
following information: 

(a) A description for how each pharmacy will comply with federal and state laws, rules and regulations; 
(b) The procedure for maintaining appropriate records to identifSi the pharmacies and pharmacists responsible for the 

prescription drug processing and dispensing of the prescription; 
(c) The policy and procedure for providing adequate security to protect the confidentiality and integrity of patient information; 

and 
(d) The procedure to be used by the pharmacy in implementing and operating a quality assurance program designed to 

objectively and systematically monitor, evaluate, and improve the quality and appropriateness of patient care. 

(5) The prescription drug processing of a prescription by one pharmacy for another pursuant to this section shall not be 
construed as the transferring of a prescription as set forth in Section 465.026, F.S. 

(6) In addition to all record requirements of Rule 64B16-28.140, F.A.C., all pharmacies participating in prescription drug 
processing, shall maintain appropriate records which identify, by prescription, the name(s), initials, or identification code(s) of each 
pharmacist or registered pharmacy technician who performs a processing fhnction for a prescription. Such records shall be 
maintained: 

(a) Separately by each pharmacy and pharmacist; or 
(b) In a common electronic file, as long as the records are maintained in such a manner that the data processing system can 

produce a printout which lists the functions performed by each pharmacy, pharmacist, registered pharmacy intern and registered 
pharmacy technician. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0266 FS. History—New 3-24-08, Amended 1-1-10. 

64B16-28.5O1 Institutional Permit — Consultant Pharmacist of Record. 
Each facility holding a Class I, a Class II, or a Modified Class II Institutional permit shall designate a consultant pharmacist of 
record to ensure compliance with the laws and rules governing the permit. The Board office shall be notified in writing within 10 

days of any change in the consultant pharmacist of record. The consultant pharmacist of record for a Class I, Modified Class II, or a 

Special ALF permit shall conduct Drug Regimen Reviews as required by Federal or State law, inspect the facility and prepare a 

written report to be filed at the permitted facility at least monthly. In addition, the consultant pharmacist of record must monitor 
monthly the facility system for providing medication administration records and physician order sheets to ensure that the most 
current record of medications is available for the monthly drug regimen review. The consultant pharmacist of record may utilize 
additional consultant pharmacists to assist in this review and or in the monthly facility inspection. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0125, 465.019, 465.022 FS. History—New 7-18-94, Formerly 61F10- 

28.50 1, 59X-28.501, Amended 1-2-02, 12-30-0 7. 



64B16-28.502 Class I Institutional Permit and Class II Institutional Permit — Labels and Labeling of Medicinal Drugs 
for Inpatients of a Nursing Home. 

(1) The label affixed to a container used in conventional dispensing to a Class I Institutional permit or a Class II Institutional 
permit which, within the scope of its practice, services only the inpatients of a nursing home as defined by Section 400.02 1(5), F.S., 
shall contain at least the following information: 

(a) The name of and address of the pharmacy; 
(b) The name of the prescriber; 
(c) The name of the patient; 
(d) The date of the original filling or the refill date; 
(e) The prescription number or other prescription identification adequate to readily identify the prescription; 
(f) The directions for use; 

(g) The name of the medicinal drug dispensed (except where the health care practitioner prescribing the drug specifically 
denotes that the name is to be withheld). 

(h) The quantity of the drug in the container. 
(2) The label affixed to a container used in dispensing substances listed in any of the schedules appearing in Chapter 893, F.S., 

in regard to conventional dispensing shall contain at least the following information: 
(a) All of the information required by subsection (1) of this rule; 
(b) The number of the prescription as recorded in the prescription files of the pharmacy in which it is filled; and 

(c) A clear, concise warning that it is a crime to transfer the controlled substance to any person other than the patient for whom 
prescribed. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0220) FS. History—New 7-31-91, Amended 10-1-92, Formerly 21S-28.502, 

61F10-28.502, 59X-28.502, Amended 8-16-JO. 

64B16-28.503 Transmission of Starter Dose Prescriptions for Patients in Class I Institutional or Modified II B Facilities. 
(1) Definitions. 
(a) "Vendor pharmacy" means a community pharmacy or special closed system pharmacy which has a contract to dispense a 

medicinal drug to a patient in a facility holding a Class I Institutional Permit or Modified II B Permit. 
(b) "Starter dose pharmacy" means a pharmacy that dispenses a medicinal drug pursuant to a starter dose prescription to a 

patient in a facility served by the vendor pharmacy. 
(c) "Starter dose prescription" means a prescription transmitted by a vendor pharmacy to a starter dose pharmacy for the 

purpose of initiating drug therapy for a patient in a facility served by the vendor pharmacy. 
(2) A vendor pharmacy may transmit a starter dose prescription to a starter dose pharmacy if the vendor pharmacy: 
(a) Has written authorization from the facility to utilize a starter dose pharmacy. 
(b) Has a written contract with the starter dose pharmacy. 
(c) Has written authorization from a prescribing practitioner to act as the practitioner's agent for the purpose of transmitting a 

starter dose prescription. 
(d) Possess a valid prescription from the prescribing practitioner prior to transmitting the starter dose prescription. 
(e) Maintains a record of each starter dose prescription. 
(f) Maintains a policy and procedure manual that references starter dose prescriptions. 
(3) A starter dose pharmacy may dispense a medicinal drug pursuant to a starter dose prescription for a patient in a facility that 

holds a Class I Institutional Permit or Modified II B Permit if the starter dose pharmacy: 
(a) Has a written contract with the vendor pharmacy. 
(b) Maintains a record of each starter dose prescription. 
(c) Maintains a policy and procedure manual that references starter dose prescriptions. 
(4) The contract between a vendor pharmacy and a prescribing practitioner shall: 

(a) Be in writing. 
(b) Identify each facility served by the vendor pharmacy for which the authorization is valid. 
(c) Authorize the vendor pharmacy to transmit, as an agent of the practitioner, a starter dose prescription to a starter dose 

pharmacy. 



(d) Be on file at the vendor pharmacy, at the facility served by the vendor pharmacy, and with the prescribing practitioner. 
(e) Be available for inspection by agents of the Department of Health or the Board of Pharmacy. 
(5) The contract between the vendor pharmacy and the starter dose pharmacy shall: 

(a) Be in writing. 
(b) Identify each facility served by the vendor pharmacy. 
(c) Assign the responsibility for prospective drug use review required by Rule 64B16-27.810, F.A.C., to the vendor pharmacy. 
(d) Assign the responsibility for patient counseling required by Rule 64B16-27.820, F.A.C., to the vendor pharmacy. 
(e) Be referenced in the Policy and Procedure Manual of the vendor pharmacy and of the starter dose pharmacy. 
(f) Be updated as necessary to identify facilities or practitioners. 
(g) Be on file at the vendor pharmacy, at the starter dose pharmacy, and at the facility. 
(h) Be available for inspection by authorized agents of the Department of Health and the Board of Pharmacy. 
(6) A record of each starter dose prescription shall be: 

(a) Readily retrievable. 
(b) Maintained for two years. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.018, 465.019, 465.022 FS. History—New 11-29-04. 

64B16-28.602 Institutional Class II Dispensing. 
(1) Pharmaceutical preparations which are administered to patients of a hospital by the personnel of such institution shall only 

be taken from the original container, or from a container which has been prepared by a Florida licensed pharmacist. Only single 
doses of such preparations shall be removed from the container, and then only after the preparation has been prescribed for a specific 
patient, and the order has been duly recorded upon the records of the institution. This requirement shall not apply to nor be construed 
as preventing the administration of treatment in bona fide emergency cases, or further as prohibiting any person who is a duly 
licensed physician from dispensing medicinal drugs as defined in Chapter 465, F.S. A single dose of medicinal drugs based upon a 

valid physician's drug order may also be obtained and administered under the supervision of the nurse in charge consistent with 
good institutional practice procedures as established by the consultant pharmacist of record and written in the policy and procedure 
manual which shall be available within the pharmacy. 

(2) A Class II institutional pharmacy may contract with a Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy for the 
pharmacy services provided for by Rule 64B16-28.860, F.A.C. 

(a) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies and institutional pharmacy permits shall create and comply with 
Policy and Procedure Manuals that delineate duties and responsibilities of each entity, including the following provisions: 

1. The institutional pharmacy permit shall maintain records appropriate to ensure the provision of proper patient care. 
2. The institutional pharmacy permit designee shall inspect and log in all medicinal drugs provided by the Special 

Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy. 
3. A pharmacist for the institutional pharmacy shall provide drug utilization review and shall review each prescription order 

prior to transmission to the Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy. 
(b) Such Policy and Procedure manuals shall be made available to the Board or Department upon request. 
(c) Prior to contracting for such services the institutional pharmacy shall ensure that the Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended 

Scope pharmacy is licensed under the provisions of Rule 64B16-28.860, F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.019(2ftb), 465.0196, (1) FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, 

Repromulgated 12-18-74, Amended 10-10-78, Formerly 21S-1.11, 21S-1.011, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.602, 61F10-28.602, Amended 9- 

4-96, Formerly 59X-28.602, Amended 8-1 6-1 0. 

64B16-28.6021 Institutional Class II Pharmacy Emergency Department Dispensing. 
(1) Individuals licensed to prescribe medicinal drugs in this state may dispense from the emergency department of a hospital 

holding a class II institutional pharmacy permit. Such dispensing must meet the requirements provided in Section 465.0 19(4), F.S., 
and this section. 

(2) The following records of prescribing and dispensing must be created by the prescriber/dispenser and maintained by the 
consultant pharmacist of record within the facility; 

(a) Patient name and address. 



(b) Drug and strength prescribed/dispensed. 
(c) Quantity prescribed/dispensed. 
(d) Directions for use. 
(e) Prescriber/dispenser. 
(f) Prescriber DEA registration, if applicable. 

(g) Reason community pharmacy services were not readily accessible. 
(3) Labeling of the prescription container must meet the requirements of Section 465.0276, F.S. 

(4) Quantity dispensed must not exceed a 24-hour supply or the minimal dispensable quantity, whichever is greater. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.019(4), 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465. 019(2)(b), (4), 465.0196, 465.022(1) FS. History—New 9-20-99, 

Amended 8-16-10. 

64B16-28.603 Class II Institutional Pharmacy Operating Hours. 
Any person who receives a Class II Institutional permit pursuant to Section 465.019, F.S., and commences to operate such a 

pharmacy shall, for the benefit of the institutions' patients' health and welfare, keep the pharmacy of the establishment open for a 

sufficient number of daily operating hours required to provide adequate and quality pharmaceutical services to the patients of said 
institution. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1) FS. History—New 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28. 603, 61F10-28. 603, 59X- 

28.603. 

64B16-28.604 Class II Institutional Pharmacy Department Security. 
The pharmacy department shall be considered closed whenever a Florida licensed pharmacist is not present and on duty. At all times 
when the pharmacy department is closed, either because of the absence of a Florida licensed pharmacist or for any other reason, it 

shall be secured to prevent access. When the pharmacy department is closed, no person other than a Florida licensed pharmacist 
shall enter, except as authorized by subsection 465.019(2)(b), F.S., and Rule 64Bl6-28.602, F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022(1), 465.019 FS. Law Implemented 465.019, 465.022(1) FS. History—New 9-21-94, Formerly 59X-28. 604. 

64B16-28.605 Class II Institutional Pharmacies Automated Distribution and Packaging. 
(1) Definitions. 
(a) "Automated medication system" means a robotic, mechanical or computerized device that is not used for medication 

compounding and is designed to: 

1. Distribute medications in a licensed health care facility; or 
2. Package medications for final distribution by a pharmacist. 
(b) "Centralized automated medication system" means an automated medication system located in a pharmacy department from 

which medication is distributed or packaged for final distribution by a pharmacist. 
(c) "Decentralized automated medication system" means an automated medication system that is located outside of a pharmacy 

department but within the same institution. 
(d) "Distribute" or "Distribution" means the process of providing a drug to an individual authorized to administer medications 

and licensed as a health care provider in the state of Florida pursuant to an order issued by an authorized prescriber. 
(e) "Medication" means a medicinal drug or proprietary preparation. 
(f) "Override medication" means a single dose of medication that may be removed from a decentralized automated medication 

system prior to pharmacist review because a practitioner licensed pursuant to Chapter 458, 459 or 466, F.S., determined that the 
clinical status of the patient would be significantly compromised by delay. 

(g) "Low risk override medication" is a medication determined by a practitioner licensed pursuant to Chapters 458, 459, or 466, 
F.S., to have a low risk of drug allergy, drug interaction, dosing error, or adverse patient outcome, and may be removed from a 

decentralized automated medication system independent of a pharmacist's review of the medication order or clinical status of the 

patient. 
(h) "Physician controlled medication" is medication distributed in an environment where a practitioner controls the order, 

preparation and administration of the medication. 



(2) General Requirements for the Use of Automated Medication Systems. 
(a) The consultant pharmacist of record shall be responsible for: 

1. Maintaining a record of each transaction or operation; 
2. Controlling access to the system; 
3. Maintaining policies and procedures for; 

a. Operation of the automated medication system; 
b. Training personnel who use the automated medication system; 
c. Maintaining patient services whenever the automated medication system is not operating; and 
d. Defining a procedure for a pharmacist to grant or deny access to the medication in the system. 
4. Security of the system; 
5. Assuring that a patient receives the pharmacy services necessary for good pharmaceutical care in a timely manner; 
6. Assuring that the system maintains the integrity of the information in the system and protects patient confidentiality; 
7. Establishing a comprehensive Quality Assurance program; 
8. Establishing a procedure for stocking or restocking the automated medication system; and 
9. Ensuring compliance with all requirements for packaging and labeling. 
(b) A pharmacist shall perform prospective drug use review and approve each medication order prior to administration of a 

medication except an override medication, a low risk override medication or a physician controlled medication. 
(c) A pharmacist shall perform retrospective drug use review for an override medication. 
(3) Multidisciplinary Committee for Decentralized Automated Medication Systems. 
(a) The consultant pharmacist of record shall convene or identify a multidisciplinary committee, which is charged with 

oversight of the decentralized automated medication system. 
(b) The Multidisciplinary Committee shall: 
1. Include at least one pharmacist; 
2. Establish the criteria and process for determining which medication qualifies as an override medication or a low risk override 

medication in a decentralized automated medication system; 
3. Develop policies and procedures regarding the decentralized automated medication system; and 
4. Have its decisions reviewed and approved by the consultant pharmacist of record. 
(4) Stocking or Restocking of a Decentralized Automated Medication System. 
(a) Medications in a decentralized Automated Medication System shall be stocked or restocked by a pharmacist, registered 

pharmacy intern, or by a registered pharmacy technician supervised by a pharmacist. 
(b) The stocking or restocking of a decentralized automated medication system shall follow one of the following procedures to 

assure correct medication selection: 
1. A pharmacist shall conduct a daily audit of medications placed or to be placed into an automated medication system that 

includes random sampling. 
2. A bar code verification, electronic verification, or similar verification process shall be utilized to assure correct selection of 

medication placed or to be placed into an automated medication system. The utilization of a bar code, electronic, or similar 
verification technology shall require an initial quality assurance validation followed by a monthly quality assurance review by a 

pharmacist. 
(5) Centralized Automated Medication Systems. A pharmacist utilizing a centralized medication system may distribute patient 

specific medications within the licensed health care facility without checking each individual medication selected or packaged by the 
system, if: 

(a) The initial medication order has been reviewed and approved by a pharmacist; and 
(b) The medication is distributed for subsequent administration by a health care professional permitted by Florida law to 

administer medication; and 
(c) A bar code verification, electronic verification, or similar verification process shall be utilized to assure correct selection of 

medication placed or to be placed into an automated medication system. The utilization of a bar code, electronic verification, or 
similar verification technology shall require an initial quality assurance validation, followed by monthly quality assurance review by 
a pharmacist. 



(6) Quality Assurance Program. The consultant pharmacist of record shall be responsible for establishing a quality assurance 
program for the automated medication system. The program shall provide for: 

(a) Review of override and low risk override medication utilization; 
(b) Investigation of a medication error related to the automated medication system; 
(c) Review of a discrepancy or transaction reports and identifSi patterns of inappropriate use or access; 
(d) Review of the operation of the system; 

(e) Integration of the automated medication system quality assurance program with the overall continuous quality improvement 
of the pharmacy as defined in Rule 64B16-27.300, F.A.C.; and 

(f) Assurance that individuals working with the automated medication system receive appropriate training on the operation of 
the system and procedures for maintaining pharmacy services when the system is not in operation. 

(7) Record Keeping. 
(a) The consultant pharmacist of record shall maintain records related to the automated medication system in a readily 

retrievable manner. 
(b) The following records shall be maintained for at least 60 days: 

1. Daily audits of stocking or restocking, if applicable; 
2. Daily audits for the output of centralized automated medication system, if applicable; and 
3. Transaction records for all non-controlled medications or devices distributed by the automated medication system. 
(c) The following records shall be maintained for at least two (2) years: 
1. Any report or analysis generated as part of the quality assurance program; 
2. A report or database related to access to the system or any change in the access to the system or to medication in the system; 

and 
3. Transaction records from the automated medication system for all controlled substances dispensed or distributed. 
(8) Compliance. The consultant pharmacist of record shall assure compliance with all requirements of Chapter 465, F.S., and the 

rules of Chapter 64B16, F.A.C. 
(9) Security. A decentralized automated medication system that contains controlled substances shall prohibit simultaneous 

access to multiple drug entities, drug strengths, or dosage forms of controlled substances, unless otherwise contained in labeled 
patient-specific form. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.019, 465.022, 465.0235, 465.026 FS. History—New 4-22-07, 

Amended 1-1-JO. 

64B16-28.606 Remote Medication Order Processing for Class II Institutional Pharmacies. 
(1) Definitions. 
(a) "Remote Medication Order Processing" includes any of the following activities performed for a Class II Institutional 

Pharmacy from a remote location: 
1. Receiving, interpreting, or clarifying medication orders. 
2. Entering or transferring medication order data. 

3. Performing prospective drug use review. 
4. Obtaining substitution authorizations. 
5. Interpreting and acting on clinical data. 
6. Performing therapeutic interventions. 
7. Providing drug information. 
8. Authorizing the release of a medication for administration. 
(b) "Medication" means a medicinal drug or proprietary preparation. 
(c) "Prospective drug use review" means an evaluation of medication orders and patient medication records for: 

1. Over-utilization or under-utilization of medication. 
2. Therapeutic duplication of medication. 
3. Drug-disease contraindications. 
4. Drug interactions. 
5. Incorrect drug dosage or duration of drug treatment. 



6. Clinical abuse or misuse of medication. 
(2) General requirements. 
(a) All pharmacists participating in remote medication order processing shall be Florida licensed pharmacists. 
(b) A Class II Institutional pharmacy may utilize remote medication order processing if the pharmacist performing the remote 

medication order processing has access to sufficient patient information necessary for prospective drug use review and approval of 
medication orders. 

(c) A pharmacist shall perform the final check of a medication order. 
(d) If the pharmacist performing remote order processing is not an employee of the Class II Institutional pharmacy, the Class II 

Institutional pharmacy must have a written agreement or contract with the pharmacist or entity employing the pharmacist. The 
written agreement or contract shall: 

1. Outline the services to be provided. 
2. Delineate the responsibilities of each party including compliance with federal and state laws and regulations governing the 

practice of pharmacy as well as state and federal medical privacy requirements. 
3. Require that the parties adopt a policies and procedures manual. 
4. Provide that the parties have access to or share a common electronic file such that the pharmacist performing remote 

medication order processing has sufficient patient information necessary for prospective drug use review and approval of medication 
orders. 

(3) Policy and Procedures. A policy and procedures manual shall: 

(a) Be accessible to each party involved in remote medication order processing. 
(b) Be available for inspection by the Board or an authorized agent of the Department. 
(c) Outline the responsibilities of each party involved in remote medication order processing. 
(d) Include a current list of the name, address, telephone number, and license number of each pharmacist involved in remote 

medication order processing. 
(e) Include policies and procedures for: 

1. Protecting the confidentiality and integrity of patient information. 
2. Ensuring that a pharmacist performing prospective drug use review has access to appropriate drug information resources. 
3. Ensuring that medical and nursing staff understand how to contact a pharmacist. 
4. Maintaining records to identify the name, initials, or identification code of each person who performs a processing fttnction 

for a medication order. 
5. Complying with federal and state laws and regulations. 
6. Operating or participating in a continuous quality improvement program for pharmacy services designed to objectively and 

systematically monitor and evaluate the quality and appropriateness of patient care, pursue opportunities to improve patient care, and 
resolve identified problems. 

7. Reviewing the written policies and procedures and documenting the review every year. 
(4) Records. 
(a) A Class II Institutional Pharmacy involved in remote medication order processing shall maintain a record that identifies the 

name, initials, or identification code of each person who performed a processing fhnction for every medication order. The record 
shall be available by medication order or by patient name. 

(b) The record may be maintained in a common electronic file if the record is maintained in such a manner that the data 
processing system can produce a printout which identifies every person who performed a processing function for a medication order. 

(c) The record shall be readily retrievable for at least the past two (2) years. 

(d) The record shall be available for inspection by the Board or an authorized agent of the Department. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.019, 465.022, 465.026 FS. History—New 11-29-04. 

64B16-28.607 Automated Pharmacy System — Long Term Care, Hospice, and Prison. 
(1) Definitions. 
(a) "Automated pharmacy system" means a mechanical system that performs operations or activities, other than compounding 

or administration, relative to the storage, packaging, counting, labeling, and delivery of a medicinal drug, and which collects, 
controls, and maintains a record of each transaction. 



(b) "Provider pharmacy" means a pharmacy that provides pharmacy services by using an automated pharmacy system at a 

remote site. 

(c) "Remote site" means a long term care facility or hospice licensed under Chapter 400, F.S., or a state correctional institution 
operated under Chapter 944, F.S., that is not located at the same location as the provider pharmacy, at which pharmacy services are 

provided using an automated pharmacy system. 
(d) "Controlled substance" means a substance listed in Chapter 893, F.S., or 21 CFR Part 1308. 

(2) Provider Pharmacy Requirements. 
(a) A provider pharmacy may provide pharmacy services to a long term care facility or hospice licensed under Chapter 400, 

F.S., or a state correctional institution operated under Chapter 944, F.S., through the use of an automated pharmacy system. 
(b) An automated pharmacy system shall only be used to provide pharmacy services to an inpatient or a resident of the remote 

site. 

(c) Supervision of the automated pharmacy system shall be the responsibility of a Florida pharmacist employed by the provider 
pharmacy. 

(d) Every medicinal drug stored in the automated pharmacy system shall be owned by the provider pharmacy. 
(e) An automated pharmacy system shall be under the supervision of a pharmacist employed by the provider pharmacy. The 

pharmacist need not be physically present at the remote site if the system is supervised electronically. 
(f) A provider pharmacy shall have policies and procedures to ensure adequate security. 
(3) Prescription Department Manager Requirements. 
(a) The prescription department manager shall ensure that the automated pharmacy system complies with Chapter 893, F.S., and 

21 C.F.R., relating to the regulation of controlled substances, for each automated pharmacy system that contains a controlled 
substance. 

(b) The prescription department manager shall ensure that the use of an automated pharmacy system does not compromise 
patient confidentiality. 

(c) The prescription department manager or a designee shall: 
1. Authorize or deny access to the data from an automated pharmacy system or to a drug stored inside the automated pharmacy 

system. 
2. Document the training of each person who has access to the data from an automated pharmacy system or to a drug stored 

inside the automated pharmacy system. 
(4) Automated Pharmacy System Requirements. 
(a) A medicinal drug stored in bulk or unit-of-use in an automated pharmacy system is part of the inventory of the provider 

pharmacy and is not part of the inventory of any other pharmacy permit for the facility. 
(b) A medicinal drug may be removed from an automated pharmacy system for administration to a patient only after a 

prescription or order has been received and approved by a pharmacist at the provider pharmacy. This provision does not apply to a 

medication designated as an emergency medication if the automated pharmacy system is also used as an emergency medication kit 
in compliance with Section 400.142, F.S. and Rule 59A-4.112, F.A.C. 

(c) A pharmacist at the provider pharmacy shall control all operations of the automated pharmacy system and approve release of 
the initial dose of a prescription or order. A subsequent dose from an approved prescription or order may be released without 
additional approval of a pharmacist. However, any change made in a prescription or order shall require a new approval by a 

pharmacist to release the drug. 
(d) A pharmacist at the provider pharmacy shall comply with the patient record requirements in Rule 64B16-27.800, F.A.C., 

and prospective drug use review requirements in Rule 64B16-27.810, F.A.C., for every medicinal drug delivered through an 
automated pharmacy system. 

(e) If the facility where pharmacy services are being provided maintains a medication administration record that includes 
directions for use of the medication, a unit dose medication may be utilized if the provider pharmacy or the automated pharmacy 
system identifies and records the dispensing pharmacy, the prescription or order number, the name of the patient, and the name of 
the prescribing practitioner for each medicinal drug delivered. 

(f) Stocking or Restocking of an Automated Pharmacy System. 
1. The stocking or restocking of a medicinal drug in an automated pharmacy system at the remote site shall be completed by a 

pharmacist or other licensed personnel, except as provided in subparagraph 2. below of this section. 



2. If the automated pharmacy system uses removable cartridges or containers to store the drug, the stocking or restocking of the 
cartridges or containers may occur at the provider pharmacy and be sent to the remote site to be loaded by personnel designated by 
the pharmacist if: 

a. A pharmacist verifies the cartridge or container has been properly filled and labeled. 
b. The individual cartridge or container is transported to the remote site in a secure, tamper-evident container. 
c. The automated pharmacy system uses bar code verification, electronic verification, or similar process to assure that the 

cartridge or container is accurately loaded into the automated pharmacy system. 

(g) A medicinal drug that has been removed from the automated pharmacy system shall not be replaced into the system unless a 

pharmacist has examined the medication, the packaging, and the labeling and determined that reuse of the medication is appropriate. 
(h) Medication to be returned to the provider pharmacy's stock shall meet the requirements of Rule 64B16-28.118, F.A.C. 
(5) Security Requirements. 
(a) If a provider pharmacy intends to store a controlled substance in an automated pharmacy system: 
1. It shall maintain a separate DEA registration for each remote site at which a controlled substance is stored. 
2. It may utilize one DEA registration to include multiple automated pharmacy systems located at a single address. 
(b) A provider pharmacy shall only store a medicinal drug at a remote site within an automated pharmacy system which is 

locked by a mechanism that prevents access to a drug or to data by unauthorized personnel. 
(c) Access to the drugs shall be limited to a pharmacist or a registered pharmacy technician employed by the provider pharmacy 

or licensed personnel in the facility or institution who are authorized to administer medication. 
(d) An automated pharmacy system that contains a controlled substance shall prohibit simultaneous access to multiple drug 

entities, drug strengths, or dosage forms of controlled substances. 
(6) Emergency medication. If an automated pharmacy system is utilized for both a medication ordered for a specific patient and 

an emergency medication for which the review of a pharmacist is not required: 
(a) The emergency medication shall be stored separately from other patient medications. 
(b) The record shall identify the storage location from which the medication was released. 
(c) The record shall include the name of the medication, the patient, the prescriber, the person who accessed the automated 

pharmacy system, and the date and time of the release. 
(7) Record Keeping Requirements. 
(a) The record of transactions with the automated pharmacy system shall be maintained in a readily retrievable manner. 
(b) The record shall be available to an authorized agent of the Department of Health or the Board of Pharmacy. 
(c) The record shall include: 
1. Name or identification of the patient or resident. 
2. Name, strength and dosage form of the drug product released. 
3. Quantity of drug released. 
4. Date and time of each release of a drug. 
S. Name of provider pharmacy. 
6. Prescription number or order number. 
7. Name of prescribing practitioner. 
8. Identity of the pharmacist who approved the prescription or order. 
9. Identity of the person to whom the drug was released. 
(d) A record of every transaction with the automated pharmacy system shall be maintained for two (2) years. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.019, 465.022, 465.0235 'S. History—New 4-22-0 7, Amended 1-1-10. 

64B16-28.702 Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies. 
(1) Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies are those Institutional Pharmacies which provide specialized pharmacy services 

restricted in scope of practice and designed to provide certain health care pharmacy services that are not generally obtainable from 
other pharmacy permittees. These specialized institutional pharmacy practices are generally identifiable with short-term or primary 
care treatment modalities in entities such as primary alcoholism treatment centers, free-standing emergency rooms, rapid inlout 
surgical centers, certain county health programs, and correctional institutions. Medicinal drugs may not be administered, except to 

patients of the institution for use on the premises of the institution, in any facility which has been issued a Modified Class II 



Institutional Pharmacy Permit. All medicinal drugs as defined by Section 465.003(7), F.S., which are stocked in these pharmacies 
are only to be administered on premises as defined by Section 465.003(1), F.S., to inpatients on an inpatient or in-program basis. In- 

program patients are defined as those patients who have met program admission criteria required by the institution. 
(2) Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies are categorized according to the type of specialized pharmaceutical delivery 

system utilized and the following criteria (Categories are designated as Type "A", Type "B" and Type "C"): 
(a) The type of the medicinal drug delivery system utilized at the facility, either a patient-specific or bulk drug system, and, the 

quantity of the medicinal drug formulary at the facility, 
(b) Type "A" Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies provide pharmacy services in a facility which has a formulary of not 

more than 15 medicinal drugs, excluding those medicinal drugs contained in an emergency box, and in which the medicinal drugs 
are stored in bulk and in which the consultant pharmacist shall provide on-site consultations not less than once every month, unless 
otherwise directed by the Board afier review of the policy and procedure manual. 

(c) Type "B" Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies provide pharmacy services in a facility in which medicinal drugs are 

stored in the facility in patient specific form and in bulk form and which has an expanded drug formulary, and in which the 
consultant pharmacist shall provide on-site consultations not less than once per month, unless otherwise directed by the Board after 
review of the policy and procedure manual. 

(d) Type "C" Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies provide pharmacy services in a facility in which medicinal drugs are 

stored in the facility in patient specific form and which has an expanded drug formulary, and in which the consultant pharmacist 
shall provide on-site consultations not less than once per month, unless otherwise directed by the Board after review of the policy 
and procedure manual. 

(3) All Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies shall be under the control and supervision of a certified consultant 
pharmacist. 

(4) The consultant pharmacist of record for the Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacy shall be responsible for establishing a 

written protocol and a policy and procedure manual for the implementation of a drug delivery system to be utilized and the 
requirements of this rule. 

(5) A copy of the permittee's policy and procedure manual as provided herein shall accompany the permit application. The 
original policy and procedure manual shall be kept within the Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacy and shall be available for 
inspection by the Department of Health. 

(6) Drugs as defined in Section 465 .003(7), F.S., stocked in Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies, Type "A" and Type "B" 
as provided herein, shall be those drugs generally utilized in the treatment modalities encompassed within the health care scope of 
the particular institutional care entity. The protocol and the policy and procedure manual for Type "A" and Type "B" Modified Class 
II Institutional Pharmacies shall contain definitive information as to drugs and strengths thereof to be stocked. 

(a) The policy and procedure manual of facilities which are issued Type A Modified Class II Institutional Permits shall provide 
the following: 

1. Definitive information as to drugs and strengths to be stored. 
2. The establishment of a Pharmacy Services Committee which shall meet at least annually. 
3. Provisions for the handling of the emergency box including the utilization of separate logs for recordkeeping. 
4. Provisions for the secure ordering, storage and recordkeeping of all medicinal drugs at the facility. 
5. Provisions for the utilization of proof-of-use forms for all medicinal drugs within the facility. 
6. A diagram of the facility and the security and storage of the medicinal drugs. 
7. Provisions for maintaining the records of consultations for not less than two (2) years at the facility which shall be stored on- 

site and available for inspection by the Department of Health. 
(b) The policy and procedure manual of facilities which are issued Type B Modified Class II Institutional Permits shall provide 

the following: 
1. The establishment of a Pharmacy Services Committee which shall meet at least annually. 
2. Provisions for the handling of the emergency box including the utilization of separate logs for recordkeeping. 
3. Provisions for the secure ordering, storage and recordkeeping of all medicinal drugs at the facility. 
4. Provisions for the utilization of a perpetual inventory system for all controlled substances, injectables and other medicinal 

drugs as required by the Pharmacy Services Committee. 
5. A diagram of the facility and the security and storage of the medicinal drugs. 



6. Provisions for maintaining the records of consultations for not less than two (2) years at the facility which shall be stored on- 
site and available for inspection by the Department of Health. 

(c) The policy and procedure manual of facilities which are issued Type C Modified Class II Institutional Permit shall provide 
the following: 

1. The establishment of a Pharmacy Services Committee which shall meet at least annually. 
2. Provisions for the handling of the emergency box including the utilization of separate logs for recordkeeping. 
3. Provisions for the secure ordering, storage and recordkeeping of all medicinal drugs at the facility. 
4. Provisions for the utilization of a Medication Administration Record (MAR) for all medicinal drugs administered to patients 

of the facility. 
5. A diagram of the facility and the security and storage of the medicinal drugs. 
6. Provisions for maintaining the records of consultations for not less than two (2) years at the facility which shall be stored on- 

site and available for inspection by the Department of Health. 
(7) Controlled drugs as defined in Chapter 893, F.S., stocked as provided herein within a Type "A" Modified Class II 

Institutional Pharmacy shall be stocked in unit size not to exceed 100 dosage units unless an exception thereto is granted by the 

Board of Pharmacy. Proof of use record sheets showing patient's name, date of administration, initials of person administering drug, 
and other pertinent control requirements are required for both controlled and noncontrolled substance medicinal drugs in Type "A" 
Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies. 

(8) A Modified Class II institutional pharmacy may contract with a Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy for the 
pharmacy services provided for by Rule 64B16-28.860, F.A.C. 

(a) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies and institutional pharmacy permits shall create and comply with 
Policy and Procedure Manuals that delineate duties and responsibilities of each entity including the following provisions: 

1. The institutional pharmacy permit shall maintain records appropriate to ensure the provision of proper patient care. 
2. The institutional pharmacy permit designee shall inspect and log in all medicinal drugs provided by the Special 

Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy. 
(b) Such Policy and Procedure manuals shall be made available to the Board or Department upon request. 
(c) Prior to contracting for such services the institutional pharmacy shall ensure that the Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended 

Scope pharmacy is licensed under the provisions of Rule 64Bl6-28.860, F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.019(2)(c) FS. History—New 4-22-82, Amended 11-5-85, Formerly 21S-1.37, 

Amended 4-16-86, Formerly 21S-1.037, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28. 702, 61F10-28. 702, Amended 9-4-96, Formerly 59X-28. 702, 

Amended 10-15-01. 

64B16-28.800 Special Pharmacies. 
(1) Special pharmacies are pharmacies providing miscellaneous specialized pharmacy service functions. The Board of 

Pharmacy, by this rule, provides for the establishment of the following special pharmacy permits: 
(a) Special-Limited Community. 
(b) Special-Parenteral and Enteral. 
(c) Special-Closed System Pharmacy. 
(d) Special-Non Resident (Mail Service). 
(e) Special-End Stage Renal Disease. 
(f) Special-Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope. 

(g) Special-ALF. 
(2) An applicant for any special pharmacy permit shall provide the Board of Pharmacy with an application (Form DOH\PH 105 

Revised 7/23/98, effective 11/11/98, which is hereby incorporated by reference and which can be obtained from the Department of 
Health) and a Policy and Procedure Manual which sets forth a detailed description of the type of pharmacy services to be provided 
within the special pharmacy practice. The Policy and Procedure Manual shall contain detailed provisions for compliance with the 

provision of Section 465.0196, F.S., and other applicable requirements contained in this chapter. 
(3) The Policy and Procedure Manual shall be prepared, maintained, and will be reviewed and is subject to approval by the 

Board of Pharmacy or its designee prior to the issuance of the permit and the initiation of the operation of the permittee. The policy 
and procedure manual is reviewed to determine if the operation of the facility will be in compliance with Chapters 465 and 893, 



F.S., and Chapter 64B16, F.A.C. The Policy and Procedure Manual shall be made available upon request of the Board or its agents. 
The applicant who requests a special permit shall be subject to inspection prior to the issuance of the permit. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196 FS. History—New 2-21-84, Formerly 21S-1.39, 21S-1.039, Amended 7-31- 

91, 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-28.800, 61F10-28.800, Amended 3-10-96, 6-4-97, Formerly 59X-28.800, Amended 11-11-98, 10-15-01. 

64B16-28.81O Special Pharmacy Limited Community Permit. 
A Special-Limited Community Permit shall be obtained by a Class II Institutional Pharmacy that dispenses medicinal drugs, 
including controlled substances to: 

(1) Employees, medical staff and their dependents for their personal use, 
(2) Patients of the hospital who are under a continuation of a course of therapy not to exceed a three (3) day supply, 
(3) Patients obtaining medical services in the facility's emergency room and, whenever it is otherwise appropriate, as indicated 

in the applicant's policy and procedure manual. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196 FS. History—New 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.810, 61F10-28.810, 59X- 

28.810, Amended 7-17-05. 

64B16-28.820 Sterile Products and Special Parenteral/Enteral Compounding. 
(1) Sterile Products and Parenteral/Enteral Compounding. 
(a) A sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy is a type of special pharmacy as provided by Section 

465.0196, F. S., which is limited in scope of pharmacy practice to render sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding 
functions. This pharmacy practice facilitates the utilization of certain institutional therapeutic measures by patients in the home 
environment or by patients in an institutional environment where such pharmacy service is unavailable. Pharmacy services, sterile 
products and parenteral/enteral products provided by a special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy 
pursuant to prescription as defined by Section 465.003(13), F.S., shall be limited to the compounding and/or dispensing of: 

1. Sterile preparations for parenteral therapy, parenteral nutrition, and/or 
2. Sterile preparations for j ejunostomy feeding and sterile irrigation solutions, and/or 
3. Sterile preparations of cytotoxic or antineo-plastic agents, and/or 
4. Sterile products (i.e., injectables, eye drops, etc.). 
(b) Prior to engaging in a sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy practice an entity shall obtain a special 

sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy permit as provided herein. 
(2) Pharmacy Environment. The compounding and dispensing of sterile products and parenteral/enteral prescription 

preparations within a special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy shall be accomplished in a pharmacy 
environment subject to the pharmacy permit laws of this state and in accordance with those requirements for the safe handling of 
drugs. The environment for this practice shall be set apart, and designed, and equipped to facilitate controlled aseptic conditions. 
Aseptic techniques shall prevail in this practice to minimize the possibility of microbial contamination. 

(3) General Requirements. 
(a) A special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy shall be under the control and supervision of a 

licensed pharmacist, who shall be designated prescription department manager on the application for a special sterile products and 
parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy. The prescription department manager or other licensed qualified pharmacist as provided 
herein shall be present on duty during all hours of operation of said pharmacy. Changes in prescription department manager shall be 
reported to the Board of Pharmacy office within 10 days by the permit holder and prescription department manager of record. A 
prescription department manager of a special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy shall not be designated 
prescription department manager of record of more than one special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy, 
unless otherwise approved by the Board. The Board will consider the proximity of the facility as well as the administrative workload 
created by the two permits, in determining whether or not it will approve the designation of someone as a prescription department 
manager of more than one special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy. 

(b) A special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy shall provide special handling and packaging of 
compounded parenteral and enteral preparations when delivering from the pharmacy to the patient or institution as required to 

maintain stability of the preparations. All such preparations shall include the time and/or date of expiration on the label. Delivery 
from the pharmacy to the patient shall be made within a reasonable time. A special sterile products and parenteral/enteral 



compounding pharmacy shall provide telephone accessibility to its pharmacist(s) for its patients at all hours. 
(c) A patient profile shall be maintained for each patient. The profile must contain available medical information consistent with 

prevailing pharmacy standards which shall be confidential. 
(d) A Policy and Procedure Manual shall be prepared and maintained at each special sterile products and parenteral/enteral 

compounding pharmacy, and be available for inspection by authorized agents of the Board of Pharmacy and the Department. The 
Policy and Procedure Manual shall set forth in detail the objectives and operational guidelines of the permittee. The Policy and 
Procedure Manual shall include a Quality Assurance Program which monitors personnel qualifications, training and performance, 
equipment facilities, and random production sampling consistent with recommended standards for compounding and dispensing 
intravenous admixtures as set forth by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Health Organizations, the National Coordinating 
Committee and Large Volume Parenteral, and as provided by the Florida Board of Pharmacy. 

(e) Compounding shall be conducted within an annually certified laminar air flow (LAF) hood, except in the existence of a 

Class 100 certified compounding environment, or certified mobile isolation chamber, in which case compounding may be conducted 
without the use of a certified laminar air flow hood. All cytotoxins must be compounded in a certified vertical laminar air flow hood 
or certified mobile isolation chamber. The use of a Type A or Type B LAF hood used shall be dependent upon the volume of work 
anticipated. All certifications shall be performed following manufacturer specification. 

(f) Protective garb: gloves, face and eye, and gowns should be provided and used. 

(g) Proper aseptic procedures must be used at all times to prevent bacterial contamination of the product as well as chemical 
contamination of the operator. 

(h) All unused cytotoxic agents and material must be disposed of properly in accordance with accepted professional standards 
and applicable law. 

(4) An applicant for a special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy permit shall provide the Board of 
Pharmacy with the following: 

(a) Completed Board of Pharmacy permit application form (Form DPR/PH/107/9-88). 
(b) Copy of Policy and Procedure Manual. 
(c) Permit fee as provided in Rule 64B16-28.121, F.A.C. 
(5) Minimum Requirements for Space, Equipment, Supplies and Publications. 
(a) To ensure compliance with the general requirements as set forth, the following minimum requirements for space, equipment, 

supplies and publications shall be met by a pharmacy which operates under the special permit of a sterile products and 
parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy. These requirements are in addition to the minimum requirements for space and 
equipment required of other types of pharmacies when applicable. The minimum permit requirements are set forth as follows: 

(b) Space: 
1. The area for preparing sterile prescriptions as provided for by this rule referred to as the sterile admixture room shall be set 

apart from general work and storage areas. The room shall be adequately air conditioned or shall be under positive pressure. 
2. The sterile admixture room shall provide space for a minimum of one laminar flow hood. Additionally, the space shall be of 

adequate size to accommodate other equipment as provided herein and sufficient space to allow pharmacists and other employees 
working therein to adequately, safely, and accurately fulfill their duties related to prescriptions. 

(c) Equipment: 
1. Laminar Air Flow Hood(s): 
a. Horizontal and/or. 
b. Vertical. 
2. Refrigerator/freezer convenient to the clean room. 
3. Sink and wash area convenient to the clean room. 
4. Appropriate waste containers for: 

a. Used needles and syringes. 
b. All cytotoxic waste including apparel. 
(d) Supplies: 
1. Gloves, masks and gowns. 
2. Needles and syringes of various standard sizes. 

3. Disinfectant cleaning agents. 



4. Clean towels. 
5. Handwashing materials with bactericidal properties. 
6. Vacuum containers and various transfer sets. 

7. "Spill kits" for cytotoxic agent spills. 
(e) Current References: 
1. Chapter 465, F.S. 
2. Chapter 499, F.S. 

3. Chapter 893, F.S. 

4. Title 64B16, F.A.C., Rules of the Florida Board of Pharmacy. 
5. United States Pharmacopeia and National Formulary, or Remington Pharmaceutical Sciences, or the United States 

Dispensatory (along with the latest supplements), or an equivalent thereof sufficient in scope to meet the professional practice needs 
of the pharmacy, and a current authoritative therapeutic reference. 

6. Handbook of Injectable Drugs by American Society of Hospital Pharmacists. 
7. "Practice Guidelines For Personnel Dealing With Cytotoxic Drugs." 
(6) A community pharmacy permittee may perform parenteral/enteral compounding or prepare sterile products without 

obtaining an additional permit under this section, so long as prior to entering into such activities, the community pharmacy meets the 

requirements of subsections (1 )-(5) above and is inspected for compliance by the Department of Health. A community pharmacy 
permittee that was engaged in the preparation of sterile products other than parenteral/enteral products as of June 1, 2002 shall have 
until June 1, 2003 to meet the requirements of subsections (1)-(5) above for the preparation of sterile products other than 
parenteral/enteral products. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.007, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.007, 465.018, 456.0196 FS. History—New 4-26-84, Formerly 21S- 

1.40, Amended 7-27-86, Formerly 21S-1.040, Amended 7-31-91, 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-28.820, 61F10-28.820, Amended 3-11-96, 6-4-97, 

Formerly 59X-28.820, Amended 7-1-02, 1-29-03. 

64B16-28.830 Special — Closed System Pharmacy. 
(1) A Special Closed System Pharmacy permit is a type of special pharmacy as provided for by Section 465.0196, F.S., which 

dispenses medicinal drugs, utilizing closed delivery systems, to facilities where prescriptions are individually prepared for the 

ultimate consumer, including nursing homes, jails, ALF's (Adult Congregate Living Facilities), ICF-MR's (Intermediate Care 
Facility/Mentally Retarded) or other custodial care facilities when defined by AHCA rules which the Board may approve. 

(2) A special closed system pharmacy permittee shall maintain a policy and procedure manual including drug procurement, 
storage, handling, compounding, dispensing, record keeping and disposition. 

(3) A special closed system pharmacy permittee shall provide twenty-four hour emergency and on-call service. 
(4) A special closed system pharmacy permittee may dispense parenteral and enteral medications as provided by rule. 
(5) A special closed system pharmacy permittee shall be under the supervision of a prescription department manager who is 

responsible for maintaining all drug records, providing security of the prescription department and following other rules as relate to 

the practice of pharmacy. The prescription department manager of a closed system pharmacy shall not be the prescription 
department manager of any other pharmacy permit except when the permit is within the premises of a community pharmacy permit. 

(6) The utilization of registered pharmacy interns and registered pharmacy technicians is subject to the rules as provided by 
Rule 64B16-26.400, F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196, 465.022 FS. History—New 7-31-91, Amended 10-1-92, Formerly 21S- 

28.830, 61F10-28.830, 59X-28.830, Amended 1-1-10. 

64B16-28.840 Special Non Resident (Mail Service). 
(1) A Special Non Resident (Mail Service) pharmacy is provided for by Section 465.0156, F.S. It is a pharmacy located 

outside this state delivering a dispensed medicinal drug in any manner into this state. 
(2) The pharmacy and the pharmacist designated as the prescription department manager or equivalent, for dispensing into 

Florida, must be licensed in the state of location. 
(3) Changes of location, corporate officers, and prescription department managers must be reported to the Board as required by 

Section 465 .0156(l)(b), F.S. 



(4) The pharmacy must have regular hours of operation of not less than six (6) days per week and not less than forty (40) hours 
per week. A toll-free telephone number must be available to patients. 

(5) A pharmacy outside of this state and not registered as a Non Resident Pharmacy may make a one-time delivery of a 

dispensed medicinal drug to a patient in this state as provided by Section 465 .0156(2), F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022, 465.0156 FS. Law Implemented 465.0156 FS. History—New 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-28. 840, 61F10- 

28.840, 59X-28.840, Amended 10-27-09. 

64B16-28.850 Special Pharmacy — ESRD. 
(1) An ESRD Pharmacy is a type of special pharmacy as provided by Section 465.0196, F.S., which is limited in scope of 

pharmacy practice to the provision of dialysis products and supplies to persons with chronic kidney failure for self-administration at 

the person's home or specified address. Pharmacy services and dialysis supplies and products provided by an ESRD pharmacy shall 
be limited to the distribution and delivery of legend drugs included in schedule (3) below; or legend devices included in schedule (4) 

below; which are ordered by a physician for administration or delivery to a person with chronic kidney failure for self-administration 
at the person's home or specified address. All dialysis supplies and products provided by an ESRD pharmacy shall be prepackaged 
and shall be covered by an approved NDA or 510 (k) application issued by the Federal Food and Drug Administration. 

(2) Prior to engaging in an ESRD pharmacy practice an entity shall obtain a special ESRD pharmacy permit as provided herein. 
(3) Schedule of legend drugs: 
(a) Saline Solutions. 
(b) Porcine Heparin. 
(c) Beef Heparin. 
(d) Dextrose Solutions. 
(e) Doxercalciferol. 
(f) Epoetin Alfa. 

(g) NACL 1NJ 50 MEQ/20 ML. 

(h) Levocarnitine. 
(i) Lidocaine. 
(j) Vitamin Preparations (dialysate use only). 

(k) Paricalcitrol. 
(1) Peritoneal Dialysate Solutions. 
(m) Protamine Sulfate. 
(n) Potassium 20 MEQ/1 OML (dialysate use only). 
(o) Sodium Ferric Gluconate Complex or equivalent. 

(p) Sterile Water for Irrigation. 
(4) The schedule of legend devices includes: 
(a) Hemodialyzers. 
(b) Hemodialysis solutions. 
(c) Bloodlines and Associated Connectology. 
(d) Peritoneal Dialysis Tubing and Connectology. 
(5) The provision of legend drugs and devices included in the schedule necessary to perform dialysis to a person with chronic 

kidney failure for self-administration at the person's home or specified address shall be under the professional supervision of an 

appropriate practitioner licensed under Florida law. The consultant pharmacist shall assure that the following occurs: 
(a) The ESRD pharmacy receives a prescription from the prescribing practitioner directing the pharmacist to dispense and 

deliver to a person with chronic kidney failure (or such person's designee) any legend drugs and/or devices included in the 
formulary necessary for the self-administration of dialysis at such person's home or specified address. 

(b) That no dispensing shall occur unless the person with chronic kidney failure has been trained in the proper use and 
administration of such products. Further, the consulting pharmacist shall ensure that the ESRD pharmacy has received records 
confirming the completion of such training. 

(c) After the delivery of such products by the ESRD pharmacy, the ESRD pharmacy shall upon request therefor, make available 
to the prescribing practitioner documentation describing, in sufficient detail, the types and quantities of products dispensed and 



delivered by the ESRD pharmacy. The ESRD pharmacy shall also, upon request, make available to the prescribing practitioner 
documentation confirming shipment of such products and receipt thereof by the person with chronic kidney failure. 

(6) The licensed ESRD pharmacy shall comply with all applicable state and federal regulatory requirements and shall maintain 
in effect all applicable permits and licenses required to dispense and deliver legend drugs and/or devices included in the formulary 
described in this Section. 

(7) The ESRD pharmacy shall deliver products to a person with chronic kidney failure only upon receipt of a valid prescription 
from a prescribing practitioner specifying or including: 

(a) Documentation that the intended recipient of the products has been trained in home dialysis therapy and will require such 
products; 

(b) The duration of prescribing practitioner's order; and 
(c) The name and product code of each product prescribed and the quantity prescribed. 
(d) The prescription may indicate the person with chronic kidney failure shall have the right to request refills of legend drugs, 

devices or both, included in the schedule and described in the order for a period of one year. 

(8) The ESRD pharmacy shall assemble the products to be delivered pursuant to the prescribing practitioner's prescription. In 

assembling such products for delivery, the ESRD pharmacy shall take steps necessary to assure the following: 
(a) The code numbers and quantities of the products assembled match the code numbers identified in the prescribing 

practitioner's prescription; 
(b) With respect to any dated products, a minimum of three (3) ffill months of shelf-life remain; and 
(c) All cartons and other packaging are properly labeled as noted below: 
1. "Use as Directed" statement; 
2. The name and address of the person to whom the products will be delivered; 
3. The name of the prescribing practitioner; 
4. The name and address of the ESRD pharmacy location from which the products were shipped; 
5. The prescription number identifying the shipment to the order created by the prescribing practitioner; and 
6. Any special instructions regarding delivery dates or locations. 
7. The date after which the drug(s) and/or device(s) must be discarded. Notwithstanding any other rule, the ESRD pharmacy 

may use, in lieu of a discard after date, the manufactures expiration date when such is displayed in an unopened sealed package. 
(d) All cartons and related packaging shall be visually inspected to confirm compliance with the specifications in paragraph 

(8)(c). Compliance with the requirements set forth in paragraph (8)(c) shall be conducted by the consulting pharmacist or 
independently by not less than two employees of the ESRD pharmacy trained in the performance of the foregoing activities, each of 
whom shall acknowledge in writing their completion of such activities with respect to each group of products assembled for 
delivery. 

(9) The ESRD pharmacy permit holder shall assure through visual inspection and comparison of records that products 
assembled for delivery to persons with chronic kidney failure are consistent with the prescribing practitioner's order therefor. 

(10) The products ordered by the prescribing practitioner under this Rule shall be delivered by either the ESRD pharmacy or a 

carrier authorized by the ESRD pharmacy. 
(11) Upon delivery of the products by the ESRD pharmacy or its carrier to the person identified on the prescribing practitioner's 

order, the ESRD pharmacy or its carrier shall confirm receipt by the patient or the patient's designee that the number of units 
delivered equals the number of units identified on the appropriate documentation. Compliance with the foregoing requirements set 

forth above shall be conducted by an employee or agent of the ESRD pharmacy trained in the performance of such activities, who 
shall acknowledge in writing the delivery of the products and the completion of such activities with respect to each delivery. 

(12) In addition to the foregoing operation requirements, an ESRD pharmacy shall comply with the following: 
(a) The ESRD pharmacy license shall be displayed at each ESRD pharmacy location. 
(b) The Board of Pharmacy shall be notified in writing of the Consulting Pharmacist responsible, at the time of application for 

the permit, for supervising the ESRD pharmacy operations and within 10 days, if the Consultant Pharmacist of record changes. 
(c) The ESRD pharmacy's hours of business shall be posted. The ESRD pharmacy shall be open such hours as are necessary to 

safely and effectively dispense and deliver supplies to those persons designated by the applicable prescribing practitioner. An ESRD 
pharmacy shall provide twenty-four hour emergency and on-call service. 

(d) The ESRD pharmacy shall have sufficient space and storage capabilities as are necessary to carry out its operation. 



(e) All legend drugs and/or legend devices included in the formulary subject to this Rule shall be properly identified. 

(0 The ESRD pharmacy shall maintain a current copy of the Florida pharmacy laws and rules. 

(g) The ESRD pharmacy shall comply with patient counseling requirements of Rules 64B16-27.800-.810 and 64B16-27.820, 
F.A.C. 

(13) ESRD Pharmacy Application Requirements. An applicant for an ESRD pharmacy permit shall provide the Board of 
Pharmacy with a Policy and Procedure Manual setting forth in detail the operational guidelines of the applicant. The Policy and 
Procedure Manual shall include a Quality Assurance Program which monitors personnel qualifications, training and performance. 

(14) An ESRD pharmacy shall be under the control and supervision of licensed Consultant Pharmacist licensed under Section 
465.0125, F.S. The Consulting Pharmacist shall be responsible for the drug/device delivery system. 

(15) The Consultant Pharmacist of record for the ESRD Pharmacy shall be responsible for establishing a written protocol and 
Policy and Procedure Manual for the implementation of a delivery system to be utilized in compliance with the requirements of this 
Rule. 

(16) The Consultant Pharmacist shall inspect the permitted ESRD pharmacy on a monthly basis. 
(17) A copy of the ESRD pharmacy's Policy and Procedure Manual as provided above shall accompany the permit application, 

shall be kept within the ESRD Pharmacy, and shall be available for inspection by the Department of Health. Changes in the Policy 
and Procedure Manual shall be approved by the Consulting Pharmacist. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196, 465.022 FS. History—New 10-2 -94, Formerly 59X-28.850, Amended 9- 

20-99, 7-1 7-05, 6-24-08. 

64B16-28.860 Special Pharmacy — Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope Permit. 
(1 )(a) A Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope permit, as authorized by Section 465.0196, F. S., is required for pharmacies 

to compound patient specific enteral/parenteral preparations in conjunction with institutional pharmacy permits, provided 
requirements set forth herein are satisfied. Prior to engaging in a parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy practice as described in 

this section, an entity shall obtain a Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy permit. 
(b) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies and institutional pharmacy permits shall create and comply with 

Policy and Procedure Manuals that delineate duties and responsibilities of each entity, including the following provisions: 
1. When dispensing patient specific prescriptions provided by an institutional pharmacy permit, the Special Parenteral/Enteral 

Extended Scope pharmacy shall confirm accuracy of the prescription and dosage. 
2. The institutional pharmacy permit shall maintain records appropriate to ensure the provision of proper patient care. 
3. The institutional pharmacy permit designee shall inspect and log in all medicinal drugs provided by the Special 

Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy. 
4. A pharmacist for the Class II institutional pharmacy shall provide drug utilization review and shall review each prescription 

order prior to transmission to the Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy. 
5. The Policy and Procedure Manual for a Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy shall also meet the policy and 

procedure manual requirements of paragraph 64B 16-28. 820(3)(d), F.A.C. 
(c) Such Policy and Procedure manuals shall be made available to the Board or Department upon request. 
(2) Facilities obtaining this permit may also provide services described in paragraph 64B16-28.820(1)(a), F.A.C., without 

obtaining an additional permit. Pharmacy services and parenteral/enteral products provided by a Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended 
Scope pharmacy shall be limited to the compounding and/or dispensing of sterile: 

(a) Preparations for parental therapy, parenteral nutrition, and/or 
(b) Preparations for enteral feeding and sterile irrigation solutions, and/or 
(c) Preparations of cytotoxic or antineoplastic agents. 
(3) Facilities operating under this permit may provide all necessary supplies and delivery systems so that the medicinal drugs 

listed herein may be properly administered. 
(4) Pharmacy Environment. The compounding and dispensing of sterile parenteral/enteral prescription preparations within a 

Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy shall be accomplished in a pharmacy environment subject to the pharmacy 
permit laws contained in Chapter 465, F.S., and in accordance with those requirements for the safe handling of drugs. Special 
Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope permittees shall comply with the requirements contained in subsections 64B 16-28.820(3) 
through (4), F.A.C., and the following: 



(a) Shall include an active and ongoing end product testing program to ensure stability, sterility, and quantitative integrity of 
finished prescriptions. 

(b) Shall insure each compounding process undergoes an initial and thereafter annual sterility validation utilizing media fill to 

ensure the integrity and validity of the compounding process. 
(5) Records. 
(a) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies shall comply with the record maintenance requirements as contained 

in Rule 64B16-28.140, F.A.C. 
(b) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies dispensing medicinal products to patients under the provisions of 

paragraph 64B16-28.820(1)(a), F.A.C., or to patients of Modified Class II institutional pharmacies under the provisions of Rule 
64Bl6-28.860, F.A.C., shall comply with the records, utilization review, and patient counseling requirements of Rules 64B16- 
27.800, 64Bl6-27.810 and 64B16-27.820, F.A.C. 

(c) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies dispensing medicinal products to patients of Class II institutional 
pharmacies under the provisions of Rule 64B16-28.860, F.A.C., shall be exempt from the records, utilization review, and patient 
counseling requirements of Rules 64B16-27.800, 64B16-27.810 and 64B16-27.820, F.A.C. 

(d) Compounding records shall be organized in such a manner as to include: lot number traceability of components used during 
compounding, documentation of any equipment used during compounding, documentation of staff performing compounding, and 
records recording ultimate dispensing of the compounded product. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196, 465.022 FS. History—New 9-4-96, Formerly 59X-28.860, Amended 7-1 7-05. 

64B16-28.870 Special-ALF. 
The Special-ALF permit is an optional facility license for those Assisted Living Facilities providing a drug delivery system utilizing 
medicinal drugs provided in unit dose packaging. All medicinal drugs must be maintained in individual prescription containers for 
the individual patient. Medicinal drugs may not be dispensed on the premises. Medicinal drugs dispensed to patients of Special-ALF 
permits may be returned to the dispensing pharmacy's stock under the provisions of Rule 64B16-28.118, F.A.C. Dispensed 
controlled substances that have been discontinued shall be disposed of under the provisions of Rule 64B16-28.301, F.A.C. 
Medicinal drugs dispensed to the residents of a Special-ALF permit shall meet the labeling requirements of Rule 64B16-28.502 and 
paragraph 64B 16-28.402(1 )(h), F.A.C. Each facility holding a Special-ALF permit shall designate a consultant pharmacist of record 
to ensure compliance with the laws and rules governing the permit. The Board office shall be notified in writing within 10 days of 
any change in the consultant pharmacist of record. The consultant pharmacist of record shall be responsible for the preparation of the 
Policy and Procedure Manual required by subsection 64B16-28.800(2), F.A.C. Policy and Procedure Manuals must provide for the 
appropriate storage conditions and security of the medicinal drugs stored at the facility. The consultant pharmacist of record shall 
inspect the facility and prepare a written report to be filed at the permitted facility at least monthly. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196 FS. History—New 2-23-98. 

64B16-28.900 Definitions Nuclear Pharmacy. 
(1) A "nuclear pharmacy" is a pharmacy which provides radiopharmaceutical services. 
(2) A "nuclear pharmacist" is a pharmacist who has met the training qualifications as described in Rule 64Bl6-28.903, F.A.C., 

and has been licensed by the Board of Pharmacy. 
(3) A "radiopharmaceutical service" shall include, but shall not be limited to, the procurement, storage, preparation, labeling, 

quality assurance testing, distribution, record keeping and disposal of radiopharmaceuticals. 
(4) A "radiopharmaceutical" is any substance defined as a drug by section 201(g)(l) of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic 

Act which exhibits spontaneous disintegration of unstable nuclei with the emission of nuclear particles or photons and includes any 
such drug which is intended to be made radioactive. This definition includes nonradioactive reagent kits and nuclide generators 
which are intended to be used in the preparation of any such substance but does not include drugs such as carbon-containing 
compounds or potassium-containing salts which contain trace quantities of naturally occurring radionuclides. 

(5) "Radiopharmaceutical quality assurance" includes, but is not limited to, the performance of appropriate chemical, biological 
and physical tests on radiopharmaceuticals, and the interpretation of the resulting data to determine their suitability for use in 

humans and animals, including internal test assessment, authentication of product history and the keeping of proper records. 
(6) "Authentication of product history" includes, but is not limited to, the purchasing source, the ultimate fate, and 



intermediate handling of any component of a radiopharmaceutical or other drug. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented (14), 465.022 ('1) (e) FS. History—New 1-7-76, Formerly 21S-3.01, Amended 4-4-88, 

Formerly 21S-3.001, Amended 7-31-91, 4-15-92, 10-1 -92, Formerly 21S-28. 900, 61F10-28.900, 59X-28.900, Amended 4-5-05. 

64B16-28.901 Nuclear Pharmacy General Requirements. 
The process employed by any permit holder in this state concerning the handling of radioactive materials must involve appropriate 
procedures for the purchase, receipt, storage, manipulation, compounding, distribution and disposal of radioactive materials. In order 
to insure the public health and safety in this respect, a nuclear pharmacy in this state shall meet the following general requirements: 

(1) Each nuclear pharmacy shall designate a nuclear pharmacist as the prescription department manager who shall be 
responsible for compliance with all laws and regulations, both state and federal pertaining to radiopharmaceuticals and 
radiopharmaceutical services. A nuclear pharmacist must personally supervise the operation of only one nuclear pharmacy during all 

times when radiopharmaceutical services are being performed. 
(2) The nuclear pharmacy area shall be secured from access by unauthorized personnel. 
(3) Each nuclear pharmacy shall maintain accurate records of the acquisition, inventory, distribution, and disposal of all 

radiopharmaceuticals. 
(4) All nuclear pharmacies shall provide a secured radioactive storage and decay area. 
(5) Nuclear pharmacies shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations of federal and state agencies for the procurement, 

secure storage, inventory, preparation, distribution and disposal of radiopharmaceuticals and other drugs. 
(6) Radiopharmaceuticals are to be distributed only upon a prescription order from an authorized licensed medical practitioner 

or through the practitioner's agent. 

(7) A nuclear pharmacist may transfer radioactive materials in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 
(8) A nuclear pharmacist upon receiving an oral prescription order for a radiopharmaceutical shall immediately have the 

prescription order reduced to writing. The pharmacist may delegate this duty to a registered pharmacy technician only as authorized 
by Rule 64Bl6-27.410, F.A.C. The prescription order shall contain at least the following: 

(a) The name of the user or his agent; 
(b) The date of distribution and the time of administration of the radiopharmaceutical; 
(c) The name of the procedure; 
(d) The name of the radiopharmaceutical; 
(e) The dose or quantity of the radiopharmaceutical; 
(f) The serial number assigned to the prescription order for the radiopharmaceutical; 
(g) Any specific instructions; and 
(h) The initials of the person who received the prescription order. 
(i) The patient's name must be obtained and recorded prior to dispensing, if the prescription order is for a therapeutic or blood 

product radiopharmaceutical. 
(9) The immediate outer container shield of a radiopharmaceutical to be dispensed shall be labeled with: 
(a) The name of and address of the pharmacy; 
(b) The name of the prescriber; 
(c) The date of the original filling; 
(d) The standard radiation symbol; 
(e) The words "Caution Radioactive Material"; 
(f) The name of the procedure; 
(g) The prescription order number of the radiopharmaceutical; 
(h) The radionuclide and chemical form; 
(i) The amount of radioactivity and the calibration date and time; 
(j) The expiration date and time; 
(k) The volume if a liquid; 
(1) The number of items or weight, if a solid; 
(m) The number of ampules or vials, if a gas; 

(n) Molybdenum 99 content to USP limits, applies only to TC 99M products; and 



(o) The name of the patient or the words "Physician's Use Only" in the absence of a patient name. If the prescription order is for 
a therapeutic or blood-product radiopharmaceutical, the patient's name must be obtained and recorded prior to dispensing. The 
requirements of this subsection shall be met when the name of the patient is readily retrievable from the physician upon demand. 

(p) The initials of the pharmacist who dispensed the medication. 
(10) The immediate inner container label of a radiopharmaceutical to be distributed shall be labeled with: 
(a) The standard radiation symbol; 
(b) The words "Caution Radioactive Material"; 
(c) The radionuclide; 
(d) The chemical form; 
(e) The prescription order number of the radiopharmaceutical. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003(14), 465.0126, 465.0 14 FASt History—New 1-7-76, Formerly 21S-3.03, 

Amended 12-11-86, 4-4-88, Formerly 21S-3.003, 21S-28.901, 61F10-28.901, Amended 2-26-95, Formerly 59X-28.901, Amended 4-5-05, 1-1-10. 

64B16-28.902 Nuclear Pharmacy — Minimum Requirements. 
In order to insure compliance with the general safety requirements as previously set forth above, the following minimum 
requirements shall be met by a nuclear pharmacy. These requirements are in addition to the general requirements for space and 
equipment for other types of pharmacies, the requirements of the Department of Health for the control of radiation hazards, and the 
applicable requirements of the Federal Food and Drug Administration. Such minimum permit requirements are set forth as follows: 

(1) Space: 
(a) The area for the storage, compounding, distribution and disposal of radiopharmaceuticals shall be adequate to completely 

separate such radioactive pharmaceuticals from pharmacy areas which contain non-radioactive medicinal drugs; 
(b) The Hot lab, storage area, and compounding and dispensing area shall be a minimum of 150 square feet. 

(2) Equipment: 
(a) Fume hood with appropriate air sampling equipment; 
(b) Shielded radiation containment drawing station; 
(c) Dose calibrator; 
(d) Well scintillation counters; 
(e) Area rate meters; 
(f) Geiger-Mueller (GM) Survey meters; 

(g) Refrigerator; 
(h) Microscope; 
(i) Syringe shields; and 
(j) Personnel radiation detection devices. 
(3) Supplies: 

(a) Syringes and vials required to perform practice; 
(b) Disposable gloves and protective lab coats; 
(c) Appropriate supplies to ensure sterile practices for I.V. solutions; 
(d) Appropriate supplies to perform thin layer chromotography; 
(e) Lead transport shields for syringes and vials. No person shall utilize reusable unit dose transport containers for radioactive 

doses without either an effective process to decontaminate the transport container of blood and other biohazardous substances or an 
effective mechanism to avoid contamination of the transport container. No person shall re-use a unit dose transport container that 
remains contaminated with blood or other biohazardous subtances. Any unit dose transport container that is returned with the 

tamper-evident seal broken and the unit dose syringe included shall be considered to be contaminated. 
(f) D.O.T. Type 7A approved transport containers and other labels and supplies for shipping radioactive materials. 
(4) Current references: 
(a) Chapter 465, F.S.; 
(b) Chapter 404, F.S.; 
(c) Chapter 893, F.S.; 

(d) Chapters 64B16-26 and 64B16-28, F.A.C., Rules of the Florida Board of Pharmacy; 



(e) Chapter 64E-5, F.A.C., Rules of the Department of Health; 
(f) Title 10 C.F.R., Code of Federal Regulations, FDA Regulations; 

(g) Title 49 C.F.R., Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation Regulations; 
(h) United States Pharmacopeia/National Formulary; 
(i) USP-DI. 

It shall be acceptable, in lieu of an actual hard copy, to maintain these materials in a readily available electronic data format. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0193, 465.022(1) FS. History—New 1-7-76, Formerly 21S-3. 04, Amended 12- 

11-86, 4-4-88, Formerly 21S-3.004, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.902, 61F10-28.902, Amended 2-26-95, Formerly 59X-28.902, Amended 

4-26-01, 4-5-05. 

64B16-28.903 Training Qualifications. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003 (14), 465.0126 FS. History—New 4-17-76, Amended 4-8-80, 6-23-83, 

Formerly 21S-3.05, Amended 8-11-86, 4-4-88, Formerly 21S-3.005, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.903, 61F10-28.903, Amended 6-12-96, 

Formerly 59X-28.903, Repealed 1-18-05. 

64B16-28.904 Nuclear Pharmacist — Continuing Education. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.0126, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.009(5), 465.0126 FS. History—New 10-28-91, Formerly 21S-28.904, 

61F10-28.904, 59X-28.904, Amended 1 -12-03, 1 0-19-03, Repealed 1 -18-05. 



CHAPTER 64B16-29 
ANIMAL CONTROL SHELTER PERMITS 

64B 16-29.001 Definition 
64B 16-29.002 General Requirements 
64B 16-29.003 Drug Requirement (Repealed) 
64B 16-29.004 Records 
64B 16-29.0041 Record Maintenance Systems for Animal Shelter Permits 
64B16-29.005 Storage 

64B16-29.OO1 Definition. 
An "animal control shelter" is a county or municipal animal control agency or Humane Society registered with the Secretary of State 
which holds a modified Class II Institutional Pharmacy permit issued by the Department of Health pursuant to certification of 
compliance with Rule 64B16-29.002, F.A.C., by the Board of Pharmacy. An animal control shelter is issued a pharmacy permit for 
the sole purpose of obtaining the drugs, sodium pentobarbital and sodium pentobarbital with lidocaine, for euthanization of animals 
within their lawfhl possession. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 828.055 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-14. 01, Amended 4-24-88, 

Formerly 21S-14.001, 21S-29.001, 61F10-29.001, 59X-29.001. 

64B16-29.002 General Requirements. 
(1) Application for an Animal Control Shelter Pharmacy permit shall be made on Board of Pharmacy approved form DOH- 

MQA/PH/107 "Animal Control Pharmacy Permit Application and Information," effective October 2009, which is incorporated by 
reference. To obtain an application, contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, FL 32399- 
3254, or (850) 488-0595, or download the application from the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. 

(a) The application fee for animal shelters applying for the Modified Class II Institutional permit shall be fifty dollars ($50). 
(b) The biennial permit renewal fee for animal shelters holding the Modified Class II Institutional permit shall be fifly dollars 

($50). 
(2) The applicant shall apply to the Drug Enforcement Administration, United States Department of Justice, by the appropriate 

DEA form, for Registration as a practitioner, to be designated as "Animal Shelter" on the appropriate DEA form. 

(3) The applicant shall be certified by the Board of Pharmacy to the Department as having met the requirements of this rule 
chapter prior to issuance of a permit. The certification process shall require prior inspection of the facility by authorized persons. 

(4) The consultant pharmacist requirement of Section 465 .019(5), F.S., is waived as being inapplicable to this special restricted 
permit. 

(5) Authorized employees of the Department shall inspect animal control shelters not less than twice per year to determine 
compliance with this rule. 

(6) Each animal control shelter permittee shall designate an on-site manager of the shelter. The on-site manager and permittee 
shall notify the Department within ten (10) days of any change in the on-site manager of the shelter. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 828.055 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-14. 02, Amended 4-24-88, 

Formerly 21S-14.002, Amended 10-1 -92, Formerly 21S-29.002, Amended 7-18-94, Formerly 61F10-29.002, 59X-29.002, Amended 5-11-10. 

64B16-29.003 Drug Requirement. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 828.055 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-14. 03, Amended 4-24-88, 

Formerly 21S-14. 003, 21S-29. 003, 61F1 0-29.003, 59X-29. 003, Repealed 3-28-12. 

64B16-29.004 Records. 
Animal control shelter permittees shall maintain records of purchases and administration of sodium pentobarbital and sodium 
pentobarbital with lidocaine for a period of not less than two (2) years. Records of administration shall contain: 

(1) The date of use; 
(2) Identification of the animal; 



(3) The amount of the drug used; 
(4) The signature of the person administering the drug; 

(5) The signature of the on-site manager the accuracy of the administration of sodium pentobarbital and sodium 
pentobarbital with lidocaine not less than once per month; and 

(6) The signature of the on-site manager to the accuracy of the records. These records are subject to audit by the Drug 
Enforcement Administration or authorized employees of the Department to determine adequacy, accuracy and validity of the record 
keeping. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 828.055 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-14. 04, Amended 4-24-88, 

Formerly 21S-14. 004, 21S-29. 004, 61F1 0-29.004, 59X-29. 004. 

64B16-29.0041 Record Maintenance Systems for Animal Shelter Permits. 
(1) General requirements for records maintained in an electronic system. 
(a) If a permitted animal shelter's data processing system is not in compliance with the Board's data processing requirements, 

the facility must maintain a manual recordkeeping system meeting the requirements of Rule 64B 16-29.004, F.A.C. 

(b) Requirements for back-up systems. The facility shall maintain a back-up copy of information stored in the data processing 
system using disk, tape, or other electronic back-up and up-date this back-up copy on a regular basis, at least monthly, to assure that 
data is not lost due to system failure. 

(c) Change or discontinuance of a data processing system. 
1. Records of dispensed and returned medicinal drugs. A permitted animal shelter that changes or discontinues use of a data 

processing system must: 

a. Transfer the records to the new data processing system; or 
b. Purge the records to a printout which contains the same information as required on the audit trail printout as specified in Rule 

64Bl6-29.004, F.A.C. 
2. Other records. A pharmacy that changes or discontinues use of a data processing system must: 

a. Transfer the records to the new data processing system; or 
b. Purge the records to a printout which contains all of the information required on the original document. 
3. Maintenance of purged records. Information purged from a data processing system must be maintained by the pharmacy for 

two years from the date of initial entry into the data processing system. 
(d) Loss of data. The shelter manager for permitted animal shelters shall report to the Board in writing any significant loss of 

information from the data processing system within 10 days of discovery of the loss. 
(2) The permitted animal shelter shall maintain a system(s) which can produce the information required in Rule 64B 16-29.004, 

F.A.C., for the preceding two years. The information required in this paragraph shall be supplied by the permitted animal shelter 
within seven working days if requested. 

(3) Failure to maintain records. Failure to provide records set out in this subsection, either on site or within 7 working days for 
whatever reason, constitutes failure to keep and maintain records. 

(4) Data processing system downtime. In the event that a permitted animal shelter which uses a data processing system 
experiences system downtime, the permitted animal shelter must have an auxiliary procedure which will ensure that all data is 

retained. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022, 828.055 'S. Law Implemented 465.019, 465.022, 465.02 6, 893.07, 828.055 FS. History—New 

3-31-05. 

64B16-29.OO5 Storage. 
Sodium pentobarbital and sodium pentobarbital with lidocaine shall be stored in a safe place. At a minimum, this shall require that 
the drugs be kept in a securely locked cabinet within a locked storage room. Schedule II order forms are to be stored under the same 
conditions. Records of purchases of sodium pentobarbital and sodium pentobarbital with lidocaine shall be maintained in a separate 
file from the records of administration. The records of purchases and administration shall be maintained at the location. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 828.055 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-14. 05, Amended 4-24-88, 

Formerly 21S-14. 005, 21S-29. 005, 61F1 0-29.005, 59X-29. 005. 



CHAPTER 64B16-30 
DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES 

64B16-30.001 
64B 16-30.002 
64B 16-30.003 
64B16-30.0035 

Disciplinary Guidelines; Range of Penalties; Aggravating and Mitigating Circumstances 
Minor Violations 
Citations 
Mediation 

64B16-30.OO1 Disciplinary Guidelines; Range of Penalties; Aggravating and Mitigating Circumstances. 
(1) The board sets forth below a range of disciplinary guidelines from which disciplinary penalties will be imposed upon 

licensees guilty of violating Chapter 465, F.S. The purpose of the disciplinary guidelines is to give notice to licensees of the range of 
penalties which will normally be imposed upon violations of particular provisions of Chapter 465, F.S. The term license means any 
permit, registation, certificate, or license, including a provisional license, issued by the Department. The minimum penalty range is 

based upon a first time single count violation of each provision listed. The maximum penalty range is based upon multiple or 
repeated violations of the same provision of Chapter 465, F.S., or the rules promulgated thereto. All penalties at the upper range of 
the sanctions set forth in the guidelines, i.e., suspension, revocation, etc., include lesser penalties, i.e., fine, probation or reprimand 
which may be included in the final penalty at the board's discretion. Probation may be subject to conditions, including restriction 
from practice in certain settings, restricting the licensee to working only under designated conditions or in certain settings, requiring 
continuing or remedial education, or any other restriction found to be necessary for the protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare. In addition to any other discipline imposed under these guidelines, the board shall assess costs relating to the investigation 
and prosecution of the case. 

(2) The following disciplinary guidelines shall be followed by the board in imposing disciplinary penalties upon licensees and 
permittees for violation of the below mentioned statutes and rules. For the purposes of this rule, the descriptions of the violations are 

abbrieviated and the full statute or rule cited should be consulted to determine the prohibited conduct. 
PENALTY RANGE 
MINIMUM MAXIMUM 
$10,000 fine for each count $10,000 fine for each count and 
and Revocation Revocation 

VIOLATION 
(a) Obtaining a license or 
permit by misrepresentation, 
fraud or error 
(Section 465.016(l)(a), F.S.) 
(Section 465.023(l)(a), F.S.) 

(b) Procuring a license or permit 
by false representation 
(Section 465.016(l)(b), F.S.) 
(Section 465.023(l)(b), F.S. 

$10,000 fine for each count 
and Revocation 

$10,000 fine for each count and 
Revocation 

(c) Permitting unlicensed 
persons to practice 
pharmacy 
(Section 465.016(l)(c), F.S.) 

$2,500 fine and 12 hours Laws & 

Rules course or Multistate Pharmacy 
Jurisprudence Exam (MPJE) 

Revocation 

(d) Being unfit or 
incompetent to practice 
pharmacy 
(Section 465.016(1)(d), (m), F.S.) 

$250 fine, indefinite suspension 
with PEN review and board 
appearance 

Revocation or, at the licensee's 
discretion, voluntarily 
relinquishment 
with reinstatement under the 

terms and conditions 
approved by the board 

(e) Violating laws 



governing the practice of 
pharmacy 
(Section 465.016(l)(e), F.S.) 
(Section 465 .023(l)(c), F.S.) 

1. Chapter 465, F.S.: 

a. Failure to supervise $250 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
registered pharmacy technician probation and 12 hour Laws 
(Section 465 .014, F.S.) & Rules Course or MPJE 

b. Operating a pharmacy $500 per month to maximum Revocation 
that is not registered of $5,000 (penalty will require 
(Section 465.015(1)(a), F.S.) permittee to renew permit or 

cease practice) 

c. Operating a pharmacy $5,000 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
where an unlicensed and probation 
unsupervised person 
practices pharmacy 
(Section 465 .015(l)(b), F.S.) 

d. Making a false or $10,000 fine for each count $10,000 fine 
fraudulent statement to the for each count and 
board Revocation 
(Section 465.0 15(2)(a), F.S.) 

e. Practicing pharmacy as an Fine based on length of time in Revocation 
inactive licensee practice while inactive; 
(Section 465.0 15(2)(b), F.S.) $500/month 

f. Selling or dispensing 
drugs without a prescription 
(Section 465 .015(2)(c), F.S.) 

(i) Non-scheduled legend $1,500 fine Revocation 
drugs 

(ii) Scheduled (controlled $5,000 fine and Revocation 
substances) legend drugs one (1) year probation 

g. Selling samples or 
complimentary drugs 
(Section 465.0 15(2)(d), F.S.) 

(i) Non-scheduled legend drugs $1,500 fine Revocation 

(ii) Scheduled (controlled $5,000 fine and one (1) year probation Revocation 
Substances) legend drugs 



h. Failure to notify the board of or not 
to have a prescription department 
manager or consultant pharmacist 
Sections 465.018, .019, .0193, .0196, 

or .0197, F.S. 
(Section 465.022(10), (11), F.S.) 

(i) Failure to notify Fine based on length of time $7,500 maximum (penalty 
(Section 465 .018, F.S.) prior to notifying board. $500 requires notification or 

per month ceasing practice) 

(ii) Failure to have Fine based on length of time prior to Revocation 
prescription department notifying board, $750 per month and 
manager or consultant one (1) year probation 
pharmacist of record 

i. Failure to comply with $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules $2,500 fine 
required substitution of Course or MPJE 
legend drug requirements 
(Sections 465 .025(2), (3), (4), F.S.) 

j. Failure to follow negative $1,000 fine and 12 hours Laws & $2,500 fine and 
formulary requirements Rules Course or MPJE one (1) year 
(Section 465.025(6), F.S.) probation 
(Rule 64B16-27.500, F.A.C.) 

k. Failure to follow $500 fine $1,000 fine and 
emergency prescription one (1) year 
requirements probation 
(Section 465.0275, F.S.) 

1. Engage in prohibited $1,500 fine Revocation 
rebate scheme 
(Section 465.185, F.S.) 

m. Failure to comply with pharmacist 
dispensing requirements 
(Section 465.186, F.S.) 

(i) Failure to follow procedure, $500 fine $1,000 fine, one (1) year 
but dispense drug appearing on probation and suspension 
formulary of right to dispense 
(Section 465.186(3), F.S.) 
(Rule 64B16-27.210, F.A.C.) 

(ii) Dispensing drug not on $1,500 fine Revocation 
the formulary 
(Section 465.186(2), F.S.) 



(Rules 64B16-27.220, .230, F.A.C.) 

2. Chapter 499, F.S. 

a. Adulteration of a drug $1,000 fine Revocation 
(Section 499.005(2), (3), F.S.) 
(Section 499.006, F.S.) 

b. Misbranding a drug 
(Section 499.005(2), (3), F.S.) 
(Section 499.007, F.S.) 

(i) Incomplete or inaccurate $250 fine and 12 hour Laws & $2,500 fine and one (1) 

labeling Rules Course or MPJE year probation 
(Section 499.007, F.S.) 
(Rule 64B16-28.108, F.A.C.) 

(ii) Fraudulent misbranding $2,500 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
of legend drugs suspension 
(Section 499.007, F.S.) 

c. Prescriptions Drug Pedigree $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules Revocation 
Course or MPJE 

d. Recordkeeping requirement $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules Revocation 
Course or MPJE 

e. Storage of drugs $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Revocation 
Course or MPJE 

3. Chapter 893, F.S. 

(Controlled substances) 

a. Filling a prescription for $1,500 fine $5,000 fine and one (1) 
controlled substances that year probation 
does not meet the requirements of 
Chapter 893, F.S. 

(Section 893.04(1)(b), F.S.) 

b. Failing to retain prescription $1,000 fine Revocation 
records for two (2) years 
(Section 893.04(1)(d), F.S.) 

c. Failing to appropriately $250 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules $2,500 fine and one (1) 

label Course or MPJE year probation 
(Section 893.04(l)(e), F.S.) 

d. Dispensing a Schedule II $5,000 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
drug inappropriately with a probation 



non-written prescription 
(Section 893.04(1)(f), F.S.) 

e. Inappropriate refilling of $1,750 fine and one (1) year One (1) year suspension 
Schedule III, IV, or V drugs probation 
(Section 893.04(1)(g), F.S.) 

f. Receiving controlled substances $2,500 fine Revocation 
without an appropriate order 
form 
(Section 893.06(1), F.S.) 

g. Unlawful possession of $2,500 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
controlled substances probation 
(Section 893 .06(2), F.S.) 

h. Failure to take a biennial $1,000 fine $2,500 fine and one (1) year 
inventory probation 
(Section 893.07(1)(a), (2), (3), 
(4), (5), F.S.) 

i. Failure to maintain a $1,000 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
complete and accurate probation 
record of controlled 
substances 
(Section 893.07(1)(b), (2), (3), 

(4), (5), F.S.) 

j. Dispensing controlled $5,000 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
substances in other than probation 
good faith 
(Section 893.08(3)(b), F.S.) 

k. Inappropriate selling of Schedule V $1,500 fine and one (1) year One (1) year suspension 
controlled substance probation 
(Section 893.08(3)(c), F.S.) 

1. Unlawful possession of $5,000 fine and two (2) years Revocation 
controlled substance probation 
(Section 893.13, F.S.) 

4. Violation of Federal Drug $500 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
Abuse Act 21 U. S. C. 821 probation 
et seq. 

(f) Criminal conviction related to 

pharmacy 
(Section 465.016(1)(f), F.S.) 
(Section 465.023(1)(d), F.S.) 



(i) Misdemeanor $1,000 fine Revocation 

(ii) Felony One (1) year suspension, Revocation 
two (2) years probation & 

$5,000 fine 

(g) Using in the compounding of a $250 fine and and complete Revocation 
prescription, or furnishing upon approved CE course in the 

prescription, an ingredient or prevention of medication errors 
article different in any manner of no less than eight (8) hours 
from the ingredient or article 
prescribed, except as authorized 
in Section 465.0 19(6), F.S. or 
Section 465 .025, F.S., or 
compounding,dispensing or 
distributing legend drugs outside 
professional practice of pharmacy 
(Section 465.016(1)(g), F.S.) 
(Section 465.016(1)(i), F.S.) 

(h) Filing a false report or failing to 

file a report required by law 

1. Knowing violation $2,000 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
probation 

2. Negligent violation Reprimand One (1) year probation and 
$1,000 fine 

(i) Failure to make prescription $250 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules $1,000 fine and one (1) year 
price information available Course or MPJE probation 
(Section 465.016(l)(k), F.S.) 

(j) Improperly placing $1,500 fine $3,000 fine and one (1) year 
returned drugs into the stock probation 
of a pharmacy 
(Section 465.016(1)(l), F.S.) 

(k) Violating a rule or order 
of the board or Department 
(Section 465.016(1)(n), F.S.) 

1. Rules of Board of Pharmacy 

a. Rules 64B 16-28.101 to $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules One (1) year probation and 
64Bl6-28.1035, F.A.C. or MPJE $2,000 fine 
Rule 64B16-27.l00, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-28.109, F.A.C. 



Rule 64B16-27.103, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-27.104, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-26.400, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-28.1081, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-26.301, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-28.114, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-27.105, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-27.21l, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-28.113, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-28.202l, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-28.603, F.A.C. 

b. Rule 64B16-28.102, F.A.C. 

c. Rule 64Bl6-27.l01, F.A.C. 
(counterfeit drugs) 

d. Rule 64B16-28.110, F.A.C. 
(outdated pharmaceuticals) 

e. Rules 64Bl6-28.30l, 
64Bl6-28.303, F.A.C. 
(destruction of controlled 
substances) (violations) 

f Rule 64B16-26.300, F.A.C 
(Serving as consultant pharmacist 
without being licensed as a 

consultant pharmacist) 

g. Rule 64B16-28.l40, F.A.C. 
(Data processing systems) 

h. Rule 64B16-28.120, F.A.C. 
(Location of legend drugs) 

i. Practicing nuclear pharmacy 
without being licensed as a 

nuclear pharmacist 
(Rule 64B16-26.303, F.A.C.) 

j. Failure to follow technical 
requirements 
(Rules 64Bl6-28.901 and 
64Bl6-28.902, F.A.C.) 

Suspension until compliance 

$1,000 fine for dispensing 

$500 fine for possession $1,000 
fine for dispensing 

$500 fine and 12 hour Laws & 

Rules or MPJE 

$500 per month up to $5,000 fine 

(fine based upon the length of time 
the person is serving as a consultant 
without being licensed as a consultant 
pharmacist) 

$500 per month up to $5,000 fine 

(fine based upon the length of time 
the person is practicing without 
being licensed as a nuclear pharmacist) 

One (1) year probation and $1,000 
fine 

Revocation 

Revocation 

k. Rules 64B16-28.202 and $1,500 fine Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

$1,000 fine 

$1,000 fine 



64B16-28.203, F.A.C. 
(transfer of prescription files and 
drugs) 

1. Failure to complete the required 
continuing education during the 
biennial licensure period. 
(Rule 64B16-26.103, F.A.C.) 

1. Failure to complete less than ten $500 fine S 1,500 fine 

(10) hours 

2. Failure to complete ten (10) or more $1,000 fine $2,500 fine 
hours 
In addition, licensees shall take 
two additional hours of continuing 
edcuation for each of the continuing 
education deficiencies. Said hours 
shall not count for continuing 
education renewal requirements for 
the next biennium. 

m. Failure to maintain program $500 fine Revocation 
requirements for certification, 
training, or continuing education 
programs or providers. 
(Rule 64B16-26.60l, F.A.C.) 

n. Failure to retain continuing $250 fine $1,500 fine 
education records. 
(Rule 64B16-26.603, F.A.C.) 

o. Failure to practice in accordance 
with established practice standards. 
(Rules 64Bl6-27.lOOl, .104, F.A.C.) 

1. Pharmacist $500 fine Revocation 

2. Pharmacy Intern $250 fine Revocation 

3. Permittee $500 fine Revocation 

p. Failure to have current policies $500 fine Revocation 
and procedures. 
(Rules 64Bl6-28.141, .450, F.A.C.) 

q. Failure to have or maintain $500 fine and 12 hours Laws & Rules MJPE Revocation 
standards for an automated 
pharmacy system in a community 





any rule adopted by the probation 
Board or the Department. 

3. Being convicted or found 
guilty of, or entering a plea 
of guilty or nob contendere to, 
regardless of adjudication, a 

crime in any jurisdiction 
which relates to the practice 
of, or the ability to practice, 
a licensee's profession. 

(i) Misdemanor $1,000 fine Revocation 

(ii) Felony $3,000 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
probation 

4. Failing to comply with $500 fine $1,000 fine 
the educational course 
requirements for human 
immunodeficiency virus and 
acquired immune deficiency 
syndrome, or medical errors. 

5. Having a license or the Same penalty as imposed in other 
authority to practice the jurisdiction or as closely as 

regulated profession possible to penalties for 
revoked, suspended, or similar violation 
otherwise acted against, 
including the denial of 
licensure, by the licensing 
authority of any jurisdiction, 
including its agencies or 
subdivisions, for a violation 
that would constitute a 

violation under Florida law. 

The licensing authority's 
acceptance of a 

relinquishment of licensure, 
stipulation, consent order, or 
other settlement, offered in 

response to or in 
anticipation of the filing of 
charges against the license, 
shall be construed as action 
against the license. 

6. Having been found liable $3,000 fine Revocation 
in a civil proceeding for 



knowingly filing a false 
report or complaint with the 

Department against another 
licensee. 

7. Attempting to obtain, Revocation or denial of license 
obtaining, or renewing a application 
license to practice a 

profession by bribery, by 
fraudulent 
misrepresentation, or 
through an error of the 
Department or the Board. 

8. Except as provided in $500 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
Section 465 .016, F.S., failing probation 
to report to the Department 
any person who the licensee 
knows is in violation of this 
part, the chapter regulating 
the alleged violator, or the 
rules of the Department or 
the Board. 

9. Aiding, assisting, $2,000 fine Revocation 
procuring, employing, or 
advising any unlicensed 
person or entity to practice a 

profession contrary to this 
part, the chapter regulating 
the profession, or the rules 
of the Department or the 
Board. 

10. Failing to perform any $2,000 fine Revocation 
statutory or legal obligation 
placed upon a licensee. 

11. Making or filing a report $2,500 fine and two (2) years Revocation 
which the licensee knows to probation 
be false, intentionally or 
negligently failing to file a 

report or record required by 
state or federal law, or 
willfully impeding or 
obstructing another person 
to do so. Such reports or 
records shall include only 
those that are signed in the 



capacity of a licensee. 

12. Making deceptive, $10,000 fine and two (2) years Revocation $10,000 fine 
untrue, or fraudulent probation and one (1) year suspension 
representations in or related 
to the practice of a 

profession or employing a 

trick or a scheme in or 
related to the practice of a 

profession. 

13. Exercising influence on $3,000 fine and two (2) years Revocation 
the patient or client for the probation 
purpose of financial gain of 
the licensee or a third party. 

14. Practicing or offering to $2,000 fine and two (2) years Revocation 
practice beyond the scope probation 
permitted by law or 
accepting and performing 
professional responsibilities 
the licensee knows, or has 
reason to know, the licensee 
is not competent to perform. 

15. Delegating or contracting $2,000 fine and two (2) years Revocation 
for the performance of probation 
professional responsibilities by 
a person when the licensee 
delegating or contracting for 
performance of such 
responsibilities knows, or 
has reason to know, such 
person is not qualified by 
training, experience, and 
authorization when required 
to perform them. 

16. Violating any provision $1,000 fine Revocation 
of this part, the applicable 
professional practice act, a 

rule of the Department or 
the Board, or a lawful order 
of the Department or the 
Board, or failing to comply 
with a lawfully issued 
subpoena of the Department. 

17. Improperly interfering $2,500 fine and two (2) years Revocation 



with an investigation or probation 
inspection authorized by 
statute, or with any 
disciplinary proceeding. 

18. Failing to report to the $1,000 fine Revocation 
board in writing within 30 

days after the licensee has 

been convicted or found 
guilty or entered a plea of 
nob contendere to, 

regardless of adjudication, 
a crime in any jurisdiction. 

19. Testing positive for any $1,500 fine PRN evaluvation and Revocation 
drug, as defined in Section two (2) years probation or compliance 
112.0455, F.S., on any with PRN contract 
confirmed preemployment 
or employer ordered drug 
screening when the 

practitioner does not have 
a lawful prescription and 
legitimate medical reason 
for using such drug. 

20. Being terminated from Suspension until successful Revocation 
or failing to successfully completion or receipt of written 
complete an impaired confirmation of compliance with 
practitioners treatment ongoing treatment and a fine of 
program. up to $1,000. 
(Section 456.072(1)(hh), F.S.) 

21. Being convicted of, or Revocation and a fine of $10,000, 
entering a plea of guilty or or in the case of application for 
nob contendere to any licensure, denial of license. 
misdemeanor or felony, 
regardless of adjudication, 
under 18 USC s. 669, 

ss. 285-287, s. 371, s. 1001, 

s. 1035,s. 1341,s. 1343, 

s. 1347,s. 1349, or s. 1518, 

or 42 USC ss. 1320a-7b, 
relating to the Medicaid program. 
(Section 456.072(1)(ii), F.S.) 

22. Failing to remit the sum owed to From a letter of concern to probation, From a reprimand to 

the state for overpayment from the and a fine of $500 to $5,000. revocation, and a fine of 
Medicaid program pursuant to a $2,500 to $5,000. 
final order, judgment, or settlement. 



(Section 456.072(1)(jj), F.S.) 

23. Being terminated from the state From a letter of concern to From a reprimand to 

Medicaid program, or any other suspension, and a fine of S 1,000 revocation, and a fine of 
state Medicaid program, or the to $5,000. $5,000 to $10,000. 
federal Medicare program. 
(Section 456.072(1)(kk), F.S.) 

24. Being convicted of, or entering Revocation and a fine of $10,000, 
into a plea of guilty or nob contendere or in the case of application for 
to any misdemeanor or felony, licensure, denial of license. 
regardless of adjudication, which 
relates to health care fraud. 
(Section 456.072(1)(ll), F.S.) 

(3) The board shall be entitled to deviate from the above-mentioned guidelines upon a showing of aggravating or mitigating 
circumstances by clear and convincing evidence presented to the board prior to the imposition of a final penalty. The fact that an 
Administrative Law Judge of the Division of Administrative Hearings may or may not have been aware of the below-mentioned 
aggravating or mitigating circumstances prior to a recommendation of penalty in a Recommended Order shall not obviate the duty of 
the board to consider aggravating and mitigating circumstances brought to its attention prior to the issuance of a Final Order. 

(a) Aggravating circumstances; circumstances which may justify deviating from the above set forth disciplinary guidelines and 
cause the enhancement of a penalty beyond the maximum level of discipline in the guidelines shall include but not be limited to the 
following: 

1. History of previous violations of the practice act and the rules promulgated thereto. 
2. In the case of negligent acts, the magnitude and scope of the damage or potential damage inflicted upon the patient or the 

general public by the licensee's misfeasance. 
3. Evidence of violation of professional practice acts in other jurisdictions wherein the licensee has been disciplined by the 

appropriate regulatory authority. 
4. Violation of the provision of the practice act wherein a letter of guidance as provided in Section 456.073(3), F.S., has 

previously been issued to the licensee. 

(b) Mitigating circumstances; circumstances which may justify deviating from the above set forth disciplinary guidelines and 
cause the lessening of a penalty beyond the minimum level of discipline in the guidelines shall include but not be limited to the 

following: 
1. In cases of negligent acts, the minor nature of the damage or potential damage to the patient's or the public's health, safety 

and welfare resulting from the licensee's misfeasance. 
2. Lack of previous disciplinary history in this or any other jurisdiction wherein the licensee practices his profession. 
3. Restitution of any monetary damage suffered by the patient. 
4. The licensee's professional standing among his peers. 
5. Steps taken by the licensee to insure the non-occurrence of similar violations in the future including continuing education. 
6. The degree of financial hardship incurred by a licensee as a result of the imposition of fines or the suspension of his practice. 
(4) All fines imposed by the Board shall be paid within a period of niney (90) days from the date of the final ordered entered by 

the Board. This time limitation may be modified by the Board for good cause shown in order to prevent undue hardship. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.072, 456.079, 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.072, 456.079 FS. History—New 3-1-87, Amended 5-11-88, Formerly 

21S-17.001, 0.OO1, 61F10-30.001, Amended 6-26-95, 1-30-96, Formerly 59X-30.001, Amended 12-3 -9 7, 11-15-98, 5-3-00, 1-2-02, 11-29-06, 

9-26-12. 

64B16-30.002 Minor Violations. 
(1) The Board sets forth the following guidelines for use by Department investigators when a licensee is in noncompliance of an 

initial offense of a minor violation. The Board deems the following violations, depending upon severity, to be consistent with 



Section 456.073(3), F.S. 

(a) Outdated pharmaceuticals Rule 64B16-28.1 10, F.A.C. 
(b) Failure to meet regulation of daily operating hours Rule 64B16-28.404, F.A.C. 
(c) Generic substitution sign not displayed Section 465.025(7), F.S. 

(d) Information required on controlled substance prescriptions: practitioner's address, practitioner's DEA registration number, 
patient's address Section 893.04, F.S. 

(e) Failure to have certified by dispensing pharmacists the daily hard-copy printout or daily log paragraph 64B 16-28. 140(3)(c) 
or (e), F.A.C. 

(f) Failure to have pharmacy minimally equipped i.e. references, compounding equipment, and a current copy of the laws and 
rules governing the practice of pharmacy in the State of Florida Rule 64B16-28.107, F.A.C. 

(g) Failure to properly identifSi pharmacy technicians Rule 64B16-27.410, F.A.C. 
(h) Results of P&E quality assurance program not documented or available for inspection paragraph 64B 1 6-28.820(3)(d), 

F.A.C. 
(i) Improper storage of legend drugs Rule 64B16-28.120, F.A.C. 
(j) Improper documentation of destruction of controlled substances Rules 64B16-28.301, 64B16-28.303, F.A.C. 
(k) Consultant pharmacist's monthly reports not current or available for inspection Rule 64B 16-28.501, subsection 64B 16- 

28.702(2), F.A.C. 
(1) Controlled substance prescription labels lack transfer crime warning labeling paragraph 64B16-28.502(2)(c), F.A.C. 
(2) The Department's investigator may issue a Notice of Deficiencies when the above conditions occur and the requirements of 

Section .073(3), F.S., are met. In such cases licensees shall correct the violation and respond to the investigator on forms 
provided by the Department and with other evidence of compliance as may be necessary, within 30 days, to certify current 
compliance. Failure to do so shall subject the licensee to further proceedings. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.073 (3), 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.073 (3) FS. History—New 11-12-90, Formerly 21S-17.002, 21S-30.002, 

61F10-30. 002, 59X-30. 002, Amended 12-9 -98, 8-26-02. 

64B16-30.003 Citations. 
(1) Pursuant to Section , F.S., the Board sets forth in (3) of this rule those violations for which there is no substantial 

threat to the public health, safety and welfare; or, if there is a substantial threat to the public health, safety and welfare, such 
potential for harm has been removed prior to the issuance of the citation. Next to each violation is the fine to be imposed. 

(2) Prior to issuance of the citation, the Department must confirm that the violation has been corrected or is in the process of 
being corrected. If the violation is a substantial threat to the public health, safety and welfare, such potential for harm must be 
removed prior to issuance of the citation. 

(3) The following violations with accompanying fines may be disposed of by citation: 
(a) Practicing pharmacy as an inactive Fine based on length of time in practice 
licensee (465.015(2)(b), F.S.) while inactive; $200/month or $5,000 

maximum (penalty will require licensee to 

renew license or cease practice). 
(b) Operating a pharmacy with an inactive permit $500 per month to a maximum of $5000 
(465.015(1)(a), F.S.) (penalty will require permittee to renew 

permit or cease practice). 
(c) First time failure to complete the required continuing education during the biennial licensure period.(456.072(3), F.S.) 
Failure to complete less than 10 hours $500 
Failure to complete 10 or more hours $1000 

In addition, licensees shall take two additional hours of continuing education for each of the continuing education deficiencies. Said 
hours shall not count for continuing education renewal requirements for the next biennium. 

(d) Failure to timely pay $500 per month late to a maximum of 
a fine or costs imposed $5,000 (penalty will require permittee or 
by a final order. licensee to also pay the original fine 

and/or costs). 



(e) Failure to display any $500 
sign, license or permit 
required by statute or rule. 
(f) Failure to have any reference $500 
material required by statute or 
rule available. 

(g) Failure to notify the Fine based on the length of time 
board of a change in prior to notifying board. 
a prescription department $200 a month to $5,000 maximum. 
manager or consultant 
pharmacist. 
(h) Using in the compounding of a $250 fine, Completion of an approved 
prescription, or ftirnishing upon CE course in the prevention of medication 
prescription, an ingredient or article errors of no less than 8 hours. 
different in any manner from the ingredient 
or article prescribed, except as authorized 
in Section 465.019(6) or 465.025, F.S.; or 
dispensing a medication with dosage 
instructions different in any way than 
prescribed, provided that the medication was 
not used or ingested. 
(i) Tendering a check payable to the $100 fine plus payment of the 
Board of Pharmacy or to the check within 30 days. 

Department of Health that is dishonored 
by the Institution upon which it is drawn. 
(j) Failing to comply with the $500 
Educational course requirements for 
Human immunodeficiency virus and 
Aquired immune deficiency 
syndrome (HIV/AIDS), or medical errors 
(k) Failure to correct $250 
Minor violation as listed in 

Rule 64B16-30.002, F.A.C. 
(1) Failure to retain continuing education records $250 
(4) Once the citation becomes a final order, the citation and complaint become a public record pursuant to Chapter 119, F.S., 

unless otherwise exempt from the provisions thereof The citation and complaint may be considered as aggravating circumstances in 
future disciplinary actions pursuant to paragraph 64B16-30.OO1(3)(a), F.A.C. 

(5) The procedures described herein apply only for an initial offense of the alleged violation. Subsequent violation(s) of the 

same rule or statute shall require the procedures of Section 456.073, F.S., to be applied. In addition, should an initial offense for 
which a citation could be issued occur in conjunction with violations not described herein, then the procedures of Section 456.073, 
F.S., shall apply. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.073, 456.077, 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.077 FS. History—New 12-22-91, Formerly 21S-30.003, 61F10-30.003, 

59X-30.003, Amended 4-3-00, 1-2-02, 8-26-02, 1-12-03, 2-1-12. 

64B16-30.0035 Mediation. 
(1) "Mediation" means a process whereby a mediator appointed by the Department acts to encourage and facilitate resolution of 

a legally sufficient complaint. It is an informal and nonadversarial process with the objective of assisting the parties to reach a 

mutually acceptable agreement. 
(2) The Board finds that mediation is an acceptable method of dispute resolution for the following violation as it is economic in 



nature or can be remedied by the licensee: failure of the licensee to timely pay any assessed administrative fines or costs. 
(3) A "mediator" means a person who is certified in mediation by the Florida Bar, the Florida Supreme Court, or the Division of 

Administrative Hearings. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.078 FS. Law Implemented 456.078 FS. History—New 11-21-94, Formerly 59X-30.0035. 



USP35 
NF3O 

USP—NF General Chapter <797> 
Pharmaceutical Compounding— 

Sterile Preparations 

U.S. PHARMACOPEIA 
The Standard of Qua/it 

Copyright ©201 I The United States Pharmacopeial Convention 

2012 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 1 

(797) PHARMACEUTICAL 
COMPOUNDING-STERILE 

PREPARATIONS 

INTRODUCTION 

The objective of this chapter is to describe conditions and 
practices to prevent harm, including death, to patients that 
could result from (1) microbial contamination (nonsterility), 
(2) excessive bacterial endotoxins, (3) variability in the in- 
tended strength of correct ingredients that exceeds either 
monograph limits for official articles (see "official" and "arti- 
cle" in the General Notices and Requirements) or 1 0% for 
nonofficial articles, (4) unintended chemical and physical 
contaminants, and (5) ingredients of inappropriate quality in 
compounded sterile preparations (CSP5). Contaminated 
CSPs are potentially most hazardous to patients when ad- 
ministered into body cavities, central nervous and vascular 
systems, eyes, and joints, and when used as baths for live 
organs and tissues. When CSPs contain excessive bacterial 
endotoxins (see Bacterial Endotoxins Test (85)), they are po- 
tentially most hazardous to patients when administered into 
the central nervous system. 

Despite the extensive attention in this chapter to the pro- 
vision, maintenance, and evaluation of air quality, the avoid- 
ance of direct or physical contact contamination is para- 
mount. It is generally acknowledged that direct or physical 
contact of critical sites of CSPs with contaminants, especially 
microbial sources, poses the greatest probability of risk to 
patients. Therefore, compounding personnel must be metic- 
ulously conscientious in precluding contact contamination of 
CSPs both within and outside ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) ar- 
eas. 

To achieve the above five conditions and practices, this 
chapter provides minimum practice and quality standards 
for CSPs of drugs and nutrients based on current scientific 
information and best sterile compounding practices. The use 
of technologies, techniques, materials, and procedures other 
than those described in this chapter is not prohibited so 
long as they have been proven to be equivalent or superior 
with statistical significance to those described herein. The 
standards in this chapter do not pertain to the clinical ad- 
ministration of CSPs to patients via application, implantation, 
infusion, inhalation, injection, insertion, instillation, and irri- 
gation, which are the routes of administration. Four specific 
categories of CSPs are described in this chapter: low-risk 
level, medium-risk level, and high-risk level, and immediate 
use. Sterile compounding differs from nonsterile compound- 
ing (see Pharmaceutical Compounding—Nonsterile Prepara- 
tions (795) and Good Compounding Practices (1075)) prima- 
rily by requiring the maintenance of sterility when 
compounding exclusively with sterile ingredients and com- 
ponents (i.e., with immediate-use CSPs, low-risk level CSPs, 
and medium-risk level CSPs) and the achievement of sterility 
when compounding with nonsterile ingredients and compo- 
nents (i.e., with high-risk level CSPs). Some differences be- 
tween standards for sterile compounding in this chapter and 
those for nonsterile compounding in Pharmaceutical Com- 
pounding—Nonsterile Preparations (795) include, but are not 
limited to, ISO-classified air environments (see Table 1); per- 
sonnel garbing and gloving; personnel training and testing 
in principles and practices of aseptic manipulations and ster- 
ilization; environmental quality specifications and monitor- 
ing; and disinfection of gloves and surfaces of ISO Class 5 
(see Table 1) sources. 

Table 1. ISO Classification of Particulate Matter in Room Air 
(limits are in particles of 0.5 .Lm and larger per cubic meter current 
ISO] and cubic feet former Federal Standard No. 209E, FS ])* 

Class Name Particle Count 

ISO Class U.S. FS 209E ISO, m° 
FS 209E, 

3 Class 1 35.2 1 

4 Class 10 352 10 

5 Class 100 3,520 100 

6 Class 1,000 35,200 1,000 

7 Class 10,000 352,000 10,000 

8 Class 100,000 3,520,000 100,000 
*Adapted from former Federal Standard No. 209E, General Services 
Administration, Washington, DC, 20407 (September 11, 1992) and 
ISO 14644-1:1999, Cleanrooms and associated controlled environ- 
ments—Part 1: Classification of air cleanliness. For example, 3,520 
particles of 0.5 per 3 or larger (ISO Class 5) is equivalent to 
100 particles per ft3 (Class 100) (1 3 = 35.2 ). 
The standards in this chapter are intended to apply to all 

persons who prepare CSPs and all places where CSPs are 
prepared (e.g., hospitals and other healthcare institutions, 
patient treatment clinics, pharmacies, physicians' practice fa- 
cilities, and other locations and facilities in which CSPs are 
prepared, stored, and transported). Persons who perform 
sterile compounding include pharmacists, nurses, pharmacy 
technicians, and physicians. These terms recognize that 
most sterile compounding is performed by or under the su- 
pervision of pharmacists in pharmacies and also that this 
chapter applies to all healthcare personnel who prepare, 
store, and transport CSPs. For the purposes of this chapter, 
CSPs include any of the following: 

(1) Compounded biologics, diagnostics, drugs, nutrients, 
and radiopharmaceuticals, including but not limited 
to the following dosage forms that must be sterile 
when they are administered to patients: aqueous 
bronchial and nasal inhalations, baths and soaks for 
live organs and tissues, injections (e.g., colloidal dis- 
persions, emulsions, solutions, suspensions), irrigations 
for wounds and body cavities, ophthalmic drops and 
ointments, and tissue implants. 

(2) Manufactured sterile products that are either prepared 
strictly according to the instructions appearing in 
manufacturers' approved labeling (product package 
inserts) or prepared differently than published in such 
labeling. NOTE—The FDA states that "Compounding 
does not include mixing, reconstituting, or similar acts 
that are performed in accordance with the directions 
contained in approved labeling provided by the prod- 
uct's manufacturer and other manufacturer directions 
consistent with that labeling" 21 USC 321 (k) and 
(m)]. However, the FDA-approved labeling (product 
package insert) rarely describes environmental quality 
(e.g., ISO Class air designation, exposure durations to 
non-ISO classified air, personnel garbing and gloving, 
and other aseptic precautions by which sterile prod- 
ucts are to be prepared for administration). Beyond- 
use exposure and storage dates or times (see General 
Notices and Requirements and Pharmaceutical Com- 
pounding—Nonsterile Preparations (795)) for sterile 
products that have been either opened or prepared 
for administration are not specified in all package in- 
serts for all sterile products. Furthermore, when such 
durations are specified, they may refer to chemical 
stability and not necessarily to microbiological purity 
or safety.] 

ORGANIZATION OF THIS CHAPTER 

The sections in this chapter are organized to facilitate the 
practitioner's understanding of the fundamental accuracy 
and quality practices for preparing CSPs. They provide a 





USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 3 

Media-Fill Test (see Microbiological Evaluation of Clean 
Rooms and Other Controlled Environments (111 6))—A test 
used to qualify aseptic technique of compounding personnel 
or processes and to ensure that the processes used are able 
to produce sterile product without microbial contamination. 
During this test, a microbiological growth medium such as 
Soybean—Casein Digest Medium is substituted for the actual 
drug product to simulate admixture 3 The is- 
sues to consider in the development of a media-fill test are 
media-fill procedures, media selection, fill volume, incuba- 
tion, time and temperature, inspection of filled units, docu- 
mentation, interpretation of results, and possible corrective 
actions required. 

Multiple-Dose Container (see General Notices and Re- 
quirements and Containers for Injections under Injections 
(1 ))—A multiple-unit container for articles or preparations 
intended for parenteral administration only and usually con- 
taining antimicrobial preservatives. The beyond-use date 
(BUD) for an opened or entered (e.g., needle-punctured) 
multiple-dose container with antimicrobial preservatives is 
28 days (see Antimicrobial Effectiveness Testing (51 )), unless 
otherwise specified by the manufacturer. 

Negative Pressure Room—A room that is at a lower 
pressure than the adjacent spaces and, therefore, the net 
flow of air is into the 1 

Pharmacy Bulk Package (see Containers for Injections 
under Injections (1))—A container of a sterile preparation for 
parenteral use that contains many single doses. The con- 
tents are intended for use in a pharmacy admixture pro- 
gram and are restricted to the preparation of admixtures for 
infusion or, through a sterile transfer device, for the filling of 
empty sterile syringes. The closure shall be penetrated only 
one time after constitution with a suitable sterile transfer 
device or dispensing set, which allows measured dispensing 
of the contents. The pharmacy bulk package is to be used 
only in a suitable work area such as a laminar flow hood (or 
an equivalent clean air compounding area). 

Where a container is offered as a pharmacy bulk package, 
the label shall (a) state prominently "Pharmacy Bulk Pack- 
age—Not for Direct Infusion," (b) contain or refer to infor- 
mation on proper techniques to help ensure safe use of the 
product, and (c) bear a statement limiting the time frame in 
which the container may be used once it has been entered, 
provided it is held under the labeled storage conditions. 

Primary Engineering Control (PEC)—A device or room 
that provides an ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment for 
the exposure of critical sites when compounding CSPs. Such 
devices include, but may not be limited to, laminar airflow 
workbenches (LAFW5), biological safety cabinets (BSC5), 
compounding aseptic isolators (CAI5), and compounding 
aseptic containment isolators (CACI5). 

Preparation—A preparation, or a CSP, that is a sterile 
drug or nutrient compounded in a licensed pharmacy or 
other healthcare-related facility pursuant to the order of a 

licensed prescriber; the article may or may not contain ster- 
ile products. 

Product—A commercially manufactured sterile drug or 
nutrient that has been evaluated for safety and efficacy by 
the FDA. Products are accompanied by full prescribing infor- 
mation, which is commonly known as the FDA-approved 
manufacturer's labeling or product package insert. 

Positive Pressure Room—A room that is at a higher 
pressure than the adjacent spaces and, therefore, the net 
airflow is out of the 1 

Single-Dose Container (see General Notices and Require- 
ments and Containers for Injections under Injections (1 ))—A 
single-dose container is a single-unit container for articles 
(see General Notices and Requirements) or preparations in- 
tended for parenteral administration only. It is intended for 
a single use. A single-dose container is labeled as such. Ex- 

U.S. Food and Drug Administration, Guidance for Industry, Sterile Drug Prod- 
ucts Produced by Aseptic Processing—current Good Manufacturing Practice, Sep- 
tember 2004. 

amples of single-dose containers include prefilled syringes, 
cartridges, fusion-sealed containers, and closure-sealed con- 
tainers when so labeled. 

Segregated Compounding Area—A designated space, 
either a demarcated area or room, that is restricted to pre- 
paring low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or less BUD. Such 
area shall contain a device that provides unidirectional air- 
flow of ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air quality for preparation 
of CSPs and shall be void of activities and materials that are 
extraneous to sterile compounding. 

Sterilizing Grade Membranes—Membranes that are 
documented to retain 100% of a culture of 1 microorgan- 
isms of a strain of Brevundimonas (Pseudomonas) diminuta 
per square centimeter of membrane surface under a pres- 
sure of not less than 30 psi (2.0 bar). Such filter membranes 
are nominally at 0.22-j.tm or 0.2-gm nominal pore size, de- 
pending on the manufacturer's practice. 

Sterilization by Filtration—Passage of a fluid or solution 
through a sterilizing grade membrane to produce a sterile 
effluent. 

Terminal Sterilization—The application of a lethal pro- 
cess (e.g., steam under pressure or autoclaving) to sealed 
containers for the purpose of achieving a predetermined ste- 
rility assurance level of usually less than 1 0-6, or a probabil- 
ity of less than one in one million of a nonsterile 3 

Unidirectional Flow (see footnote 3)—An airflow moving 
in a single direction in a robust and uniform manner and at 
sufficient speed to reproducibly sweep particles away from 
the critical processing or testing area. 

RESPONSIBILITY OF COMPOUNDING 
PERSONNEL 

Compounding personnel are responsible for ensuring that 
CSPs are accurately identified, measured, diluted, and mixed 
and are correctly purified, sterilized, packaged, sealed, la- 
beled, stored, dispensed, and distributed. These perfor- 
mance responsibilities include maintaining appropriate 
cleanliness conditions and providing labeling and supple- 
mentary instructions for the proper clinical administration of 
CS Ps. 

Compounding supervisors shall ensure, through either di- 
rect measurement or appropriate information sources, that 
specific CSPs maintain their labeled strength within mono- 
graph limits for USP articles, or within 10% if not specified, 
until their BUDs. All CSPs are prepared in a manner that 
maintains sterility and minimizes the introduction of particu- 
late matter. 

A written quality assurance procedure includes the follow- 
ing in-process checks that are applied, as appropriate, to 
specific CSPs: accuracy and precision of measuring and 
weighing; the requirement for sterility; methods of steriliza- 
tion and purification; safe limits and ranges for strength of 
ingredients, bacterial endotoxins, and particulate matter; 
PH; labeling accuracy and completeness; BUD assignment; 
and packaging and storage requirements. The dispenser 
shall, when appropriate and practicable, obtain and evaluate 
results of testing for identity, strength, purity, and sterility 
before a CSP is dispensed. Qualified licensed healthcare pro- 
fessionals who supervise compounding and dispensing of 
CSPs shall ensure that the following objectives are achieved: 

1. Compounding personnel are adequately skilled, edu- 
cated, instructed, and trained to correctly perform 
and document the following activities in their sterile 
compounding duties: 

a. perform antiseptic hand cleansing and disinfection 
of nonsterile compounding surfaces; 

b. select and appropriately don protective garb; 
c. maintain or achieve sterility of CSPs in ISO Class 5 

(see Table 1) PEC devices and protect personnel 
and compounding environments from contamina- 
tion by radioactive, cytotoxic, and chemotoxic 



4 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

drugs (see Hazardous Drugs as CSPs and Radio- 
pharmaceuticals as CSPs); 

d. identify, weigh, and measure ingredients; and 
e. manipulate sterile products aseptically, sterilize 

high-risk level CSPs, and label and quality inspect 
CSPs. 

2. Ingredients have their correct identity, quality, and 
purity. 

3. Opened or partially used packages of ingredients for 
subsequent use in CSPs are properly stored under re- 
stricted access conditions in the compounding facility. 
Such packages cannot be used when visual inspection 
detects unauthorized breaks in the container, closure, 
and seal; when the contents do not possess the ex- 
pected appearance, aroma, and texture; when the 
contents do not pass identification tests specified by 
the compounding facility; and when either the BUD 
or expiration date has been exceeded. 

4. Water-containing CSPs that are nonsterile during any 
phase of the compounding procedure are sterilized 
within 6 hours after completing the preparation in or- 
der to minimize the generation of bacterial 
endotoxins. 

5. Sterilization methods achieve sterility of CSPs while 
maintaining the labeled strength of active ingredients 
and the physical integrity of packaging. 

6. Measuring, mixing, sterilizing, and purifying devices 
are clean, appropriately accurate, and effective for 
their intended use. 

7. Potential harm from added substances and differences 
in rate and extent of bioavailability of active ingredi- 
ents for other than oral route of administration are 
carefully evaluated before such CSPs are dispensed 
and administered. 

8. Packaging selected for CSPs is appropriate to preserve 
the sterility and strength until the BUD. 

9. While being used, the compounding environment 
maintains the sterility or the presterilization purity, 
whichever is appropriate, of the CSP. 

10. Labels on CSPs list the names and amounts or con- 
centrations of active ingredients, and the labels or la- 
beling of injections (see Preservation, Packaging, Stor- 
age, and Labeling in the General Notices and 
Requirements) list the names and amounts or concen- 
trations of all ingredients (see Injections (1>). Before 
being dispensed or administered, the clarity of solu- 
tions is visually confirmed; also, the identity and 
amounts of ingredients, procedures to prepare and 
sterilize CSPs, and specific release criteria are reviewed 
to ensure their accuracy and completeness. 

11. BUDs are assigned on the basis of direct testing or 
extrapolation from reliable literature sources and 
other documentation (see Stability Criteria and Be- 
yond-Use Dating under Pharmaceutical Compounding— 
Nonsterile Preparations (795)). 

12. Procedures for measuring, mixing, dilution, purifica- 
tion, sterilization, packaging, and labeling conform to 
the correct sequence and quality established for the 
specified CSP. 

1 3. Deficiencies in compounding, labeling, packaging, 
and quality testing and inspection can be rapidly 
identified and corrected. 

14. When time and personnel availability so permit, com- 
pounding manipulations and procedures are sepa- 
rated from postcompounding quality inspection and 
review before CSPs are dispensed. 

This chapter emphasizes the need to maintain high stan- 
dards for the quality and control of processes, components, 
and environments and for the skill and knowledge of per- 
sonnel who prepare CSPs. The rigor of in-process quality- 
control checks and of postcompounding quality inspection 
and testing increases with the potential hazard of the route 
of administration. For example, nonsterility, excessive bacte- 
rial endotoxin contamination, large errors in strength of cor- 
rect ingredients, and incorrect ingredients in CSPs are po- 

tentially more dangerous to patients when the CSPs are 
administered into the vascular and central nervous systems 
than when administered by most other routes. 

CSP MICROBIAL CONTAMINATION RISK 
LEVELS 

The three contamination categories for CSPs described in 
this section are assigned primarily according to the potential 
for microbial contamination during the compounding of 
low-risk level CSPs and medium-risk level CSPs or the poten- 
tial for not sterilizing high-risk level CSPs, any of which 
would subject patients to risk of harm, including death. 
High-risk level CSPs must be sterilized before being adminis- 
tered to patients. The appropriate risk level—low, medium, 
or high—is assigned according to the corresponding proba- 
bility of contaminating a CSP with (1) microbial contamina- 
tion (e.g., microbial organisms, spores, endotoxins) and (2) 
chemical and physical contamination (e.g., foreign chemi- 
cals, physical matter). Potential sources of contamination in- 
clude, but are not limited to, solid and liquid matter from 
compounding personnel and objects; nonsterile components 
employed and incorporated before terminal sterilization; in- 
appropriate conditions within the restricted compounding 
environment; prolonged presterilization procedures with 
aqueous preparations; and nonsterile dosage forms used to 
compound CSPs. 

The characteristics described below for low-, medium-, 
and high-risk level CSPs are intended as a guide to the 
breadth and depth of care necessary in compounding, but 
they are neither exhaustive nor prescriptive. The licensed 
healthcare professionals who supervise compounding are re- 
sponsible for determining the procedural and environmental 
quality practices and attributes that are necessary for the risk 
level they assign to specific CSPs. 

These risk levels apply to the quality of CSPs immediately 
after the final aseptic mixing or filling or immediately after 
the final sterilization, unless precluded by the specific char- 
acteristics of the preparation. Upon subsequent storage and 
shipping of freshly finished CSPs, an increase in the risks of 
chemical degradation of ingredients, contamination from 
physical damage to packaging, and permeability of plastic 
and elastomeric packaging is expected. In such cases, com- 
pounding personnel are responsible for considering the po- 
tential additional risks to the integrity of CSPs when as- 
signing BUDs. The pre-administration storage duration and 
temperature limits specified in the following subsections ap- 
ply in the absence of direct sterility testing results that justify 
different limits for specific CSPs. 

Low-Risk Level CSPs 

CSPs compounded under all the following conditions are 
at a low risk of contamination. 

Low-Risk Conditions— 
1. The CSPs are compounded with aseptic manipula- 

tions entirely within ISO Class S (see Table 1) or bet- 
ter air quality using only sterile ingredients, products, 
components, and devices. 

2. The compounding involves only transfer, measuring, 
and mixing manipulations using not more than three 
commercially manufactured packages of sterile prod- 
ucts and not more than two entries into any one ster- 
ile container or package (e.g., bag, vial) of sterile 
product or administration container/device to prepare 
the CSP. 

3. Manipulations are limited to aseptically opening am- 
puls, penetrating disinfected stoppers on vials with 
sterile needles and syringes, and transferring sterile 
liquids in sterile syringes to sterile administration de- 
vices, package containers of other sterile products, 
and containers for storage and dispensing. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 5 

4. For a low-risk level preparation, in the absence of 
passing a sterility test (see Sterility Tests (71 )), the 
storage periods cannot exceed the following time pe- 
riods: before administration, the CSPs are properly 
stored and are exposed for not more than 48 hours at 
controlled room temperature (see General Notices and 
Requirements), for not more than 14 days at a cold 
temperature (see General Notices and Requirements), 
and for 45 days in solid frozen state between —25° 
and —10g. 

Examples of Low-Risk Compounding— 
1. Single-volume transfers of sterile dosage forms from 

ampuls, bottles, bags, and vials using sterile syringes 
with sterile needles, other administration devices, and 
other sterile containers. The solution content of am- 
puls should be passed through a sterile filter to re- 
move any particles. 

2. Simple aseptic measuring and transferring with not 
more than three packages of manufactured sterile 
products, including an infusion or diluent solution to 
compound drug admixtures and nutritional solutions. 

Low-Risk Level CSPs with 12-Hour or Less BUD—If the 
PEC is a CAl or CACI that does not meet the requirements 
described in Placement of Primary Engineering Controls or is a 
laminar airflow workbench (LAFW) or a biological safety 
cabinet (BSC) that cannot be located within an ISO Class 7 
(see Table 1) buffer area, then only low-risk level nonhazard- 
ous and radiopharmaceutical CSPs pursuant to a physician's 
order for a specific patient may be prepared, and adminis- 
tration of such CSPs shall commence within 12 hours of 
preparation or as recommended in the manufacturers' pack- 
age insert, whichever is less. Low-risk level CSPs with a 
12-hour or less BUD shall meet all of the following four 
criteria: 

1. PECs (LAFWs, BSCs, CAIs, CACIs,) shall be certified 
and maintain ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) as described in 
Facility Design and Environmental Controls for exposure 
of critical sites and shall be in a segregated com- 
pounding area restricted to sterile compounding ac- 
tivities that minimize the risk of CSP contamination. 

2. The segregated compounding area shall not be in a 
location that has unsealed windows or doors that 
connect to the outdoors or high traffic flow, or that is 
adjacent to construction sites, warehouses, or food 
preparation. Note that this list is not intended to be 
all inclusive. 

3. Personnel shall follow the procedures described in 
Personnel Cleansing and Garbing and Additional Person- 
nel Requirements prior to compounding. Sinks should 
not be located adjacent to the ISO Class 5 (see Table 
1) PEC. Sinks should be separated from the immedi- 
ate area of the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) PEC device. 

4. The specifications in Cleaning and Disinfecting the Ster- 
ile Compounding Areas, Personnel Training and Compe- 
tency Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and 
Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures, and Viable and Non- 
viable Environmental Sampling (ES) Testing shall be fol- 
lowed as described in the chapter. 

Compounding personnel must recognize that the absence 
of an ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) buffer area environment in a 
general uncontrolled environment increases the potential of 
microbial contamination, and administration durations of 
microbially contaminated CSPs exceeding a few hours in- 
crease the potential for clinically significant microbial coloni- 
zation, and thus for patient harm, especially in critically ill or 
immunocompromised patients. 

Quality Assurance—Quality assurance practices include, 
but are not limited to the following: 

1. Routine disinfection and air quality testing of the di- 
rect compounding environment to minimize micro- 
bial surface contamination and maintain ISO Class 5 
(see Table 1) air quality. 

2. Visual confirmation that compounding personnel are 
properly donning and wearing appropriate items and 

types of protective garments, including eye protec- 
tion and face masks. 

3. Review of all orders and packages of ingredients to 
ensure that the correct identity and amounts of ingre- 
dients were compounded. 

4. Visual inspection of CSPs to ensure the absence of 
particulate matter in solutions, the absence of leakage 
from vials and bags, and the accuracy and thorough- 
ness of labeling. 

Media-Fill Test Procedure—This test or an equivalent 
test is performed at least annually by each person author- 
ized to compound in a low-risk level environment under 
conditions that closely simulate the most challenging or 
stressful conditions encountered during compounding of 
low-risk level CSPs. Once begun, this test is completed with- 
out interruption. Example of test procedure: within an ISO 
Class 5 (see Table 1) air quality environment, three sets of 
four 5-mL aliquots of sterile Soybean—Casein Digest Medium 
(also known as trypticase soy broth or trypticase soy agar 
TSA]) are transferred with the same sterile 10-mL syringe 
and vented needle combination into separate sealed, empty, 
sterile 30-mL clear vials (i.e., four 5-mL aliquots into each of 
three 30-mL vials). Sterile adhesive seals are aseptically af- 
fixed to the rubber closures on the three filled vials, then 
the vials are incubated at 200 to 25° or at 30° to 35° for a 
minimum of 14 days. If two temperatures are used for incu- 
bation of media-filled samples, then these filled containers 
should be incubated for at least 7 days at each temperature 
(see Microbiological Evaluation of Clean Rooms and Other 
Controlled Environments (111 6)). Inspect for microbial 
growth over 14 days as described in Personnel Training and 
Competency Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and 
Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures. 

Medium-Risk Level CSPs 

When CSPs are compounded aseptically under Low-Risk 
Conditions and one or more of the following conditions ex- 
ists, such CSPs are at a medium risk of contamination. 

Medium-Risk Conditions— 
1. Multiple individual or small doses of sterile products 

are combined or pooled to prepare a CSP that will be 
administered either to multiple patients or to one pa- 
tient on multiple occasions. 

2. The compounding process includes complex aseptic 
manipulations other than the single-volume transfer. 

3. The compounding process requires unusually long 
duration, such as that required to complete dissolu- 
tion or homogeneous mixing. 

4. For a medium-risk preparation, in the absence of 
passing a sterility test (see Sterility Tests (71 )), the 
storage periods cannot exceed the following time pe- 
riods: before administration, the CSPs are properly 
stored and are exposed for not more than 30 hours at 
controlled room temperature (see General Notices and 
Requirements), for not more than 9 days at a cold 
temperature (see General Notices and Requirements), 
and for 45 days in solid frozen state between —25° 
and —10°. 

Examples of Medium-Risk Compounding— 
1. Compounding of total parenteral nutrition fluids us- 

ing manual or automated devices during which there 
are multiple injections, detachments, and attachments 
of nutrient source products to the device or machine 
to deliver all nutritional components to a final sterile 
container. 

2. Filling of reservoirs of injection and infusion devices 
with more than three sterile drug products and evac- 
uation of air from those reservoirs before the filled 
device is dispensed. 

3. Transfer of volumes from multiple ampuls or vials into 
one or more final sterile containers. 



6 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

Quality Assurance—Quality assurance procedures for 
medium-risk level CSPs include all those for low-risk level 
CSPs, as well as a more challenging media-fill test passed 
annually or more frequently. 

Media-Fill Test Procedure—This test or an equivalent 
test is performed at least annually under conditions that 
closely simulate the most challenging or stressful conditions 
encountered during compounding. Once begun, this test is 
completed without interruption. Example of test procedure: 
within an ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air quality environment, 
six 1 00-mL aliquots of sterile Soybean—Casein Digest Me- 
dium are aseptically transferred by gravity through separate 
tubing sets into separate evacuated sterile containers. The 
six containers are then arranged as three pairs, and a sterile 
1 0-mL syringe and 1 8-gauge needle combination is used to 
exchange two 5-mL aliquots of medium from one container 
to the other container in the pair. For example, after a 5-mL 
aliquot from the first container is added to the second con- 
tainer in the pair, the second container is agitated for 
10 seconds, then a 5-mL aliquot is removed and returned to 
the first container in the pair. The first container is then 
agitated for 10 seconds, and the next 5-mL aliquot is trans- 
ferred from it back to the second container in the pair. Fol- 
lowing the two 5-mL aliquot exchanges in each pair of con- 
tainers, a 5-mL aliquot of medium from each container is 
aseptically injected into a sealed, empty, sterile 10-mL clear 
vial, using a sterile 10-mL syringe and vented needle. Sterile 
adhesive seals are aseptically affixed to the rubber closures 
on the three filled vials, then the vials are incubated at 20° 
to 25° or at 30° to 35° for a minimum of 14 days. If two 
temperatures are used for incubation of media-filled sam- 
ples, then these filled containers should be incubated for at 
least 7 days at each temperature (see Microbiological Evalua- 
tion of Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environments 
(1116)). Inspect for microbial growth over 14 days as de- 
scribed in Personnel Training and Competency Evaluation of 
Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and Cleaning/Disinfection Pro- 
cedures. 

High-Risk Level CSPs 

CSPs compounded under any of the following conditions 
are either contaminated or at a high risk to become 
contaminated. 

High-Risk Conditions— 
1. Nonsterile ingredients, including manufactured prod- 

ucts not intended for sterile routes of administration 
(e.g., oral), are incorporated or a nonsterile device is 
employed before terminal sterilization. 

2. Any of the following are exposed to air quality worse 
than ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) for more than 1 hour 
(see Immediate-Use CSP5): 
• sterile contents of commercially manufactured 

products, 
• CSPs that lack effective antimicrobial preservatives, 

and 
• sterile surfaces of devices and containers for the 

preparation, transfer, sterilization, and packaging of 
CS Ps. 

3. Compounding personnel are improperly garbed and 
gloved (see Personnel Cleansing and Use of Barrier Pro- 
tective Equipment). 

4. Nonsterile water-containing preparations are stored 
for more than 6 hours before being sterilized. 

5. It is assumed, and not verified by examination of la- 
beling and documentation from suppliers or by direct 
determination, that the chemical purity and content 
strength of ingredients meet their original or corn- 
pendial specifications in unopened or in opened 
packages of bulk ingredients (see Ingredient Selection 
under Pharmaceutical Compounding—Nonsterile Prepa- 
rations (795)). 

For a sterilized high-risk level preparation, in the absence 
of passing a sterility test, the storage periods cannot exceed 

the following time periods: before administration, the CSPs 
are properly stored and are exposed for not more than 
24 hours at controlled room temperature (see General No- 
tices and Requirements), for not more than 3 days at a cold 
temperature (see General Notices and Requirements), and for 
45 days in solid frozen state between —25° and —1 0°. 
NOTE—Sterility tests for autoclaved CSPs are not required 
unless they are prepared in batches of more than 25 units.] 

All nonsterile measuring, mixing, and purifying devices are 
rinsed thoroughly with sterile, pyrogen-free water, and then 
thoroughly drained or dried immediately before use for 
high-risk compounding. All high-risk level CSP solutions sub- 
jected to terminal sterilization are prefiltered by passing 
through a filter with a nominal pore size not larger than 1 .2 
jim preceding or during filling into their final containers to 
remove particulate matter. Sterilization of high-risk level 
CSPs by filtration shall be performed with a sterile 0.2-lim or 
0.22-jim nominal pore size filter entirely within an ISO Class 
5 (see Table 1) or superior air quality environment. 

Examples of High-Risk Conditions— 
1. Dissolving nonsterile bulk drug and nutrient powders 

to make solutions that will be terminally sterilized. 
2. Exposing the sterile ingredients and components used 

to prepare and package CSPs to room air quality 
worse than ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) for more than 
1 hour (see Immediate-Use CSPs). 

3. Measuring and mixing sterile ingredients in nonsterile 
devices before sterilization is performed. 

4. Assuming, without appropriate evidence or direct de- 
termination, that packages of bulk ingredients contain 
at least 95% by weight of their active chemical moi- 
ety and have not been contaminated or adulterated 
between uses. 

Quality Assurance—Quality assurance procedures for 
high-risk level CSPs include all those for low-risk level CSPs. 
In addition, a media-fill test that represents high-risk level 
compounding is performed semiannually by each person 
authorized to compound high-risk level CSPs. 

Media-Fill Test Procedure for CSPs Sterilized by 
Filtration—This test or an equivalent test is performed 
under conditions that closely simulate the most challenging 
or stressful conditions encountered when compoundin 
high-risk level CSPs. Once begun, this test is complete 
without interruption. Example of test procedure (in the fol- 
lowing sequence): 

1. Dissolve 3 g of nonsterile commercially available 
Soybean—Casein Digest Medium in 100 rnL of 
nonbacteriostatic water to make a 3% nonsterile 
solution. 

2. Draw 25 mL of the medium into each of three 30-rnL 
sterile syringes. Transfer 5 mL from each syringe into 
separate sterile 1 0-mL vials. These vials are the posi- 
tive controls to generate exponential microbial 
growth, which is indicated by visible turbidity upon 
incubation. 

3. Under aseptic conditions and using aseptic tech- 
niques, affix a sterile 0.2-jim or 0.22-jim nominal 
pore size filter unit and a 20-gauge needle to each 
syringe. Inject the next 10 mL from each syringe into 
three separate 1 0-mL sterile vials. Repeat the process 
for three more vials. Label all vials, affix sterile adhe- 
sive seals to the closure of the nine vials, and incu- 
bate them at 20° to 25° or at 30° to 35° for a mini- 
mum of 14 days. If two temperatures are used for 
incubation of media-filled samples, then these filled 
containers should be incubated for at least 7 days at 
each temperature (see Microbiological Evaluation of 
Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environments 
(1116)). Inspect for microbial growth over 14 days as 
described in Personnel Training and Competency Evalu- 
ation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and Cleaning/ 
Disinfection Procedures. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 7 

PERSONNEL TRAINING AND EVALUATION IN 
ASEPTIC MANIPULATION SKILLS 

Personnel who prepare CSPs shall be trained conscien- 
tiously and skillfully by expert personnel and through audi- 
o—video instructional sources and professional publications 
in the theoretical principles and practical skills of aseptic ma- 
nipulations and in achieving and maintaining ISO Class 5 
(see Table 1) environmental conditions before they begin to 
prepare CSPs. Compounding personnel shall perform didac- 
tic review and pass written and media-fill testing of aseptic 
manipulative skills initially, at least annually thereafter for 
low- and medium-risk level compounding, and semiannually 
for high-risk level compounding. Compounding personnel 
who fail written tests or whose media-fill test vials result in 
gross microbial colonization shall be immediately re-in- 
structed and re-evaluated by expert compounding personnel 
to ensure correction of all aseptic practice deficiencies. 

Media-Fill Challenge Testing—The skill of personnel to 
aseptically prepare CSPs may be evaluated using sterile fluid 
bacterial culture media-fill 3 (i.e., sterile bacterial 
culture medium transfer via a sterile syringe and needle). 
Media-fill testing is used to assess the quality of the aseptic 
skill of compounding personnel. Media-fill tests represent 
the most challenging or stressful conditions actually encoun- 
tered by the personnel being evaluated when they prepare 
particular risk level CSPs and when sterilizing high-risk level 
CSPs. Media-fill challenge tests that simulate high-risk level 
compounding are also used to verify the capability of the 
compounding environment and process to produce a sterile 
preparation. 

Commercially available sterile fluid culture media, such as 
Soybean—Casein Digest Medium (see Sterility Tests (71 )), 
shall be able to promote exponential colonization of bacte- 
ria that are most likely to be transmitted to CSPs from the 
compounding personnel and environment. Media-filled vials 
are generally incubated at 20° to 25° or at 30° to 35° for a 
minimum of 14 days. If two temperatures are used for incu- 
bation of media-filled samples, then these filled containers 
should be incubated for at least 7 days at each temperature 
(see Microbiological Evaluation of Clean Rooms and Other 
Controlled Environments (111 6)). Failure is indicated by visi- 
ble turbidity in the medium on or before 14 days. 

IMMEDIATE-USE CSPs 

The immediate-use provision is intended only for those 
situations where there is a need for emergency or immedi- 
ate patient administration of a CSP. Such situations may in- 
clude cardiopulmonary resuscitation, emergency room treat- 
ment, preparation of diagnostic agents, or critical therapy 
where the preparation of the CSP under conditions de- 
scribed for Low-Risk Level CSPs subjects the patient to addi- 
tional risk due to delays in therapy. Immediate-use CSPs are 
not intended for storage for anticipated needs or batch 
compounding. Preparations that are medium-risk level and 
high-risk level CSPs shall not be prepared as immediate-use 
CS Ps. 

Immediate-use CSPs are exempt from the requirements 
described for Low-Risk Level CSPs only when all of the fol- 
lowing criteria are met: 

1. The compounding process involves simple transfer of 
not more than three commercially manufactured 
packages of sterile nonhazardous products or diag- 
nostic radiopharmaceutical products from the manu- 
facturers' original containers and not more than two 
entries into any one container or package (e.g., bag, 
vial) of sterile infusion solution or administration con- 
tainer/device. For example, anti-neoplastics shall not 
be prepared as immediate-use CSPs because they are 
hazardous drugs. 

2. Unless required for the preparation, the compound- 
ing procedure is a continuous process not to exceed 
1 hour. 

3. During preparation, aseptic technique is followed 
and, if not immediately administered, the finished 
CSP is under continuous supervision to minimize the 
potential for contact with nonsterile surfaces, intro- 
duction of particulate matter or biological fluids, mix- 
ups with other CSPs, and direct contact of outside 
surfaces. 

4. Administration begins not later than 1 hour following 
the start of the preparation of the CSP. 

5. Unless immediately and completely administered by 
the person who prepared it or immediate and com- 
plete administration is witnessed by the preparer, the 
CSP shall bear a label listing patient identification in- 
formation, the names and amounts of all ingredients, 
the name or initials of the person who prepared the 
CSP, and the exact 1-hour BUD and time. 

6. If administration has not begun within 1 hour follow- 
ing the start of preparing the CSP, the CSP shall be 
promptly, properly, and safely discarded. 

Compounding in worse than ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) 
conditions increases the likelihood of microbial contamina- 
tion, and administration durations of microbially contami- 
nated CSPs exceeding a few hours increase the potential for 
clinically significant microbial colonization and thus for pa- 
tient harm, especially in critically ill or immunocompromised 
patients. 

SINGLE-DOSE AND MULTIPLE-DOSE 
CONTAINERS 

Opened or needle-punctured single-dose containers, such 
as bags, bottles, syringes, and vials of sterile products and 
CSPs shall be used within 1 hour if opened in worse than 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air quality (see Immediate-Use 
CSPs), and any remaining contents must be discarded. Sin- 
gle-dose vials exposed to ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) or 
cleaner air may be used up to 6 hours after initial needle 
puncture. Opened single-dose ampuls shall not be stored 
for any time period. Multiple-dose containers (e.g., vials) are 
formulated for removal of portions on multiple occasions 
because they usually contain antimicrobial preservatives. The 
BUD after initially entering or opening (e.g., needle-punc- 
tured) multiple-dose containers is 28 days (see Antimicrobial 
Effectiveness Testing (51)) unless otherwise specified by the 
manufacturer. 

HAZARDOUS DRUGS AS CSPs 

Although the potential therapeutic benefits of com- 
pounded sterile hazardous drug preparations generally out- 
weigh the risks of their adverse effects in ill patients, ex- 
posed healthcare workers risk similar adverse effects with no 
therapeutic benefit. Occupational exposure to hazardous 
drugs can result in (1) acute effects, such as skin rashes; (2) 
chronic effects, including adverse reproductive events; and 
(3) possibly cancer (see Appendix A of NIOSH Publication 
no. 2004-1 65). 

Hazardous drugs shall be prepared for administration only 
under conditions that protect the healthcare workers and 
other personnel in the preparation and storage areas. Haz- 
ardous drugs shall be stored separately from other inventory 
in a manner to prevent contamination and personnel expo- 
sure. Many hazardous drugs have sufficient vapor pressures 
that allow volatilization at room temperature; thus storage is 
preferably within a containment area such as a negative 
pressure room. The storage area should have sufficient gen- 



8 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

eral exhaust ventilation, at least 12 air changes per hour 
(ACPH)4 to dilute and remove any airborne contaminants. 

Hazardous drugs shall be handled with caution at all 
times using appropriate chemotherapy gloves during receiv- 
ing, distribution, stocking, inventorying, preparation for ad- 
ministration, and disposal. Hazardous drugs shall be pre- 
pared in an ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment with 
protective engineering controls in place and following asep- 
tic practices specified for the appropriate contamination risk 
levels defined in this chapter. Access shall be limited to ar- 
eas where drugs are stored and prepared to protect persons 
not involved in drug preparation. 

All hazardous drugs shall be prepared in a 5 or a CACI 
that meets or exceeds the standards for CACI in this chap- 
ter. The ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) BSC or CACI shall be 
placed in an ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) area that is physically 
separated (i.e., a different area from other preparation areas) 
and optimally has not less than 0.01-inch water column 
negative pressure to adjacent positive pressure ISO Class 7 
(see Table 1) or better ante-areas, thus providing inward air- 
flow to contain any airborne drug. A pressure indicator shall 
be installed that can be readily monitored for correct room 
pressurization. The BSC and CACI optimally should be 100% 
vented to the outside air through HEPA filtration. 

If a CACI that meets the requirements of this chapter is 
used outside of a buffer area, the compounding area shall 
maintain a minimum negative pressure of 0.01-inch water 
column and have a minimum of 12 ACPHs. 

When closed-system vial-transfer devices (CSTD5) (i.e., 
vial-transfer systems that allow no venting or exposure of 
hazardous substance to the environment) are used, they 
shall be used within the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environ- 
ment of a BSC or CAd. The use of a CSTD is preferred 
because of their inherent closed system process. In facilities 
that prepare a low volume of hazardous drugs, the use of 
two tiers of containment (e.g., CSTD within a BSC or CACI 
that is located in a non-negative pressure room) is accept- 
able. 

Appropriate personnel protective equipment (PPE) shall be 
worn when compounding in a BSC or CACI and when using 
CSTD devices. PPE should include gowns, face masks, eye 
protection, hair covers, shoe covers or dedicated shoes, 
double gloving with sterile chemo-type gloves, and compli- 
ance with manufacturers' recommendations when using a 
CACI. 

All personnel who compound hazardous drugs shall be 
fully trained in the storage, handling, and disposal of these 
drugs. This training shall occur prior to preparing or han- 
dling hazardous CSPs, and its effectiveness shall be verified 
by testing specific hazardous drugs preparation techniques. 
Such verification shall be documented for each person at 
least annually. This training shall include didactic overview 
of hazardous drugs, including mutagenic, teratogenic, and 
carcinogenic properties, and it shall include ongoing train- 
ing for each new hazardous drug that enters the market- 
place. Compounding personnel of reproductive capability 
shall confirm in writing that they understand the risks of 
handling hazardous drugs. The training shall include at least 
the following: (1) safe aseptic manipulation practices; (2) 
negative pressure techniques when utilizing a BSC or CACI; 
(3) correct use of CSTD devices; (4) containment, cleanup, 
and disposal procedures for breakages and spills; and (5) 
treatment of personnel contact and inhalation exposure. 

NOTE—Because standards of assay and unacceptable quanti- 
ties of contamination of each drug have not been established 
in the literature, the following paragraph is a recommendation 
only. Future standards will be adopted as these assay methods 
are developed and proven. 

In order to ensure containment, especially in operations 
preparing large volumes of hazardous drugs, environmental 
'Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities, Rec- 
ommendations of CDC and the Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advi- 
sory Committee (HICPAC), MMWR, vol. 52, no. RR-1 0, lune 6, 2003, figure 
3, pg. 12. 

NSF/ANSI 49. 

sampling to detect uncontained hazardous drugs should be 
performed routinely (e.g., initially as a benchmark and at 
least every 6 months or more often as needed to verify con- 
tainment). This sampling should include surface wipe sam- 
pling of the working area of BSCs and CACIs; counter tops 
where finished preparations are placed; areas adjacent to 
BSCs and CACIs, including the floor directly under the work- 
ing area; and patient administration areas. Common marker 
hazardous drugs that can be assayed include cyclophospha- 
mide, ifosfamide, methotrexate, and fluorouracil. If any 
measurable contamination (cyclophosphamide levels greater 
than 1 .00 ng per 2 have been found to cause human 
uptake) is found by any of these quality assurance proce- 
dures, practitioners shall make the decision to identify, doc- 
ument, and contain the cause of contamination. Such ac- 
tion may include retraining, thorough cleaning (utilizing 
high-pH soap and water), and improving engineering con- 
trols. Examples of improving engineering controls are (1) 
venting BSCs or CACIs 100% to the outside, (2) implement- 
ing a CSTD, or (3) re-assessing types of BSCs or CACIs. 

Disposal of all hazardous drug wastes shall comply with all 
applicable federal and state regulations. All personnel who 
perform routine custodial waste removal and cleaning activi- 
ties in storage and preparation areas for hazardous drugs 
shall be trained in appropriate procedures to protect them- 
selves and prevent contamination. 

RADIOPHARMACEUTICALS AS CSPs 

In the case of production of radiopharmaceuticals for pos- 
itron emission tomography (PET), general test chapter Radi- 
opharmaceuticals for Positron Emission Tomograph y—Com- 
pounding (823) supersedes this chapter. Upon release of a 
PET radiopharmaceutical as a finished drug product from a 
production facility, the further handling, manipulation, or 
use of the product will be considered compounding, and 
the content of this section and chapter is applicable. 

For the purposes of this chapter, radiopharmaceuticals 
compounded from sterile components in closed sterile con- 
tainers and with a volume of 100 mL or less for a single- 
dose injection or not more than 30 mL taken from a multi- 
ple-dose container (see Injections (1)) shall be designated as, 
and conform to, the standards for Low-Risk Level CSPs. 

These radiopharmaceuticals shall be compounded using 
appropriately shielded vials and syringes in a properly func- 
tioning and certified ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) PEC located in 
an ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) or cleaner air environment to 
permit compliance with special handling, shielding, and 
negative air flow requirements. 

Radiopharmaceutical vials designed for multi-use, com- 
pounded with technetium-99m, exposed to ISO Class 5 (see 
Table 1) environment, and punctured by needles with no 
direct contact contamination may be used up to the time 
indicated by manufacturers' recommendations. Storage and 
transport of properly shielded vials of radiopharmaceutical 
CSPs may occur in a limited access ambient environment 
without a specific ISO class designation. 

Technetium-99m/molybdenum-99 generator systems shall 
be stored and eluted (operated) under conditions recom- 
mended by manufacturers and applicable state and federal 
regulations. Such generator systems shall be eluted in an 
ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) or cleaner air environment to per- 
mit special handling, shielding, and air flow requirements. 
To limit acute and chronic radiation exposure of inspecting 
personnel to a level that is as low as reasonably achievable 
(ALARA), direct visual inspection of radiopharmaceutical 
CSPs containing high concentrations of doses of radioactiv- 
ity shall be conducted in accordance with ALARA. 

Radiopharmaceuticals prepared as Low-Risk Level CSPs with 
12-Hour or Less BUD shall be prepared in a segregated com- 
pounding area. A line of demarcation defining the segre- 
gated compounding area shall be established. Materials and 
garb exposed in a patient care and treatment area shall not 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 9 

cross a line of demarcation into the segregated compound- 
ing area. 

ALLERGEN EXTRACTS AS CSPs 

Allergen extracts as CSPs are single-dose and multiple- 
dose intradermal or subcutaneous injections that are prepared 
by specially trained physicians and personnel under their di- 
rect supervision. Allergen extracts as CSPs are not subject to 
the personnel, environmental, and storage requirements for 
all CSP Microbial Contamination Risk Levels in this chapter 
only when all of the following criteria are met: 

1. The compounding process involves simple transfer via 
sterile needles and syringes of commercial sterile aller- 
gen products and appropriate sterile added sub- 
stances (e.g., glycerin, phenol in sodium chloride 
injection). 

2. All allergen extracts as CSPs shall contain appropriate 
substances in effective concentrations to prevent the 
growth of microorganisms. Nonpreserved allergen ex- 
tracts shall comply with the appropriate CSP risk level 
requirements in the chapter. 

3. Before beginning compounding activities, personnel 
perform a thorough hand-cleansing procedure by re- 
moving debris from under fingernails using a nail 
cleaner under running warm water followed by vigor- 
ous hand and arm washing to the elbows for at least 
30 seconds with either nonantimicrobial or antimicro- 
bial soap and water. 

4. Compounding personnel don hair covers, facial hair 
covers, gowns, and face masks. 

5. Compounding personnel perform antiseptic hand 
cleansing with an alcohol-based surgical hand scrub 
with persistent activity. 

6. Compounding personnel don powder-free sterile 
gloves that are compatible with sterile 70% isopropyl 
alcohol (IPA) before beginning compounding manipu- 
lations. 

7. Compounding personnel disinfect their gloves inter- 
mittently with sterile 70% IPA when preparing multi- 
ple allergen extracts as CSPs. 

8. Ampul necks and vial stoppers on packages of manu- 
factured sterile ingredients are disinfected by careful 
wiping with sterile 70% IPA swabs to ensure that the 
critical sites are wet for at least 10 seconds and al- 
lowed to dry before they are used to compound aller- 
gen extracts as CSPs. 

9. The aseptic compounding manipulations minimize di- 
rect contact contamination (e.g., from glove finger- 
tips, blood, nasal and oral secretions, shed skin and 
cosmetics, other nonsterile materials) of critical sites 
(e.g., needles, opened ampuls, vial stoppers). 

10. The label of each multiple-dose vial (MDV) of allergen 
extracts as CSPs lists the name of one specific patient 
and a BUD and storage temperature range that is as- 
signed based on manufacturers' recommendations or 
peer-reviewed publications. 

11. Single-dose allergen extracts as CSPs shall not be 
stored for subsequent additional use. 

Personnel who compound allergen extracts as CSPs must 
be aware of greater potential risk of microbial and foreign 
material contamination when allergen extracts as CSPs are 
compounded in compliance with the foregoing criteria in- 
stead of the more rigorous standards in this chapter for CSP 
Microbial Contamination Risk Levels. Although contaminated 
allergen extracts as CSPs can pose health risks to patients 
when they are injected intradermally or subcutaneously, these 
risks are substantially greater if the extract is inadvertently 
injected intravenously. 

VERIFICATION OF COMPOUNDING 
ACCURACY AND STERILITY 

The compounding procedures and sterilization methods 
for CSPs correspond to correctly designed and verified writ- 
ten documentation in the compounding facility. Verification 
requires planned testing, monitoring, and documentation to 
demonstrate adherence to environmental quality require- 
ments, personnel practices, and procedures critical to 
achieving and maintaining sterility, accuracy, and purity of 
finished CSPs. For example, sterility testing (see Test for Ste- 
rility of the Product To Be Examined under Sterility Tests (71)) 
may be applied to specimens of low- and medium-risk level 
CSPs, and standard self-contained biological indicators (BI) 
shall be added to nondispensable specimens of high-risk 
level CSPs before terminal sterilization for subsequent evalu- 
ation to determine whether the sterilization cycle was ade- 
quate (see Biological Indicators for Sterilization (1 035)). Pack- 
aged and labeled CSPs shall be visually inspected for 
physical integrity and expected appearance, including final 
fill amount. The accuracy of identities, concentrations, 
amounts, and purities of ingredients in CSPs shall be con- 
firmed by reviewing labels on packages, observing and doc- 
umenting correct measurements with approved and cor- 
rectly standardized devices, and reviewing information in 
labeling and certificates of analysis provided by suppliers. 
When the correct identity, purity, strength, and sterility of 
ingredients and components of CSPs cannot be confirmed 
(in cases of, for example, unlabeled syringes, opened am- 
puls, punctured stoppers of vials and bags, containers of 
ingredients with incomplete labeling), such ingredients and 
components shall be discarded immediately. 

Some individual ingredients, such as bulk drug sub- 
stances, are not labeled with expiration dates when they are 
stable indefinitely in their commercial packages under their 
labeled storage conditions. However, despite retaining full 
chemical stability, such ingredients may gain or lose mois- 
ture during storage and use. Changes in moisture content 
may require testing (see Loss on Drying (731)) to determine 
the correct amount to weigh for accurate content of active 
chemical moieties in CSPs (see Pharmaceutical Calculations in 
Prescription Compounding (11 60)). 

Although not required, a quantitative stability-indicating 
chemical assay is recommended to ensure compounding ac- 
curacy of CSPs, especially those that contain drug ingredi- 
ents with a narrow therapeutic plasma concentration range. 

Sterilization Methods 

The licensed healthcare professionals who supervise com- 
pounding shall be responsible for determining that the se- 
lected sterilization method (see Methods of Sterilization 
under Sterilization and Sterility Assurance of Compendial Arti- 
cles (1211)) both sterilizes and maintains the strength, pu- 
rity, quality, and packaging integrity of CSPs. The selected 
sterilization process is obtained from experience and appro- 
priate information sources (e.g., see Sterilization and Sterility 
Assurance of Compendial Articles (1211 ))—and, preferably, 
verified wherever possible—to achieve sterility in the particu- 
lar CSPs. General guidelines for matching CSPs and compo- 
nents to appropriate sterilization methods include the 
following: 

1. CSPs have been ascertained to remain physically and 
chemically stable when subjected to the selected ster- 
ilization method. 

2. Glass and metal devices may be covered tightly with 
aluminum foil, then exposed to dry heat in an oven 
at a mean temperature of 250° for 30 minutes to 
achieve sterility and depyrogenation (see Dry-Heat 
Sterilization under Sterilization and Sterility Assurance of 
Compendia! Articles (1211) and Bacterial Endotoxins 
Test (85)). Such items are either used immediately or 
stored until use in an environment suitable for corn- 



1 0 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

pounding Low-Risk Level CSPs and Medium-Risk Level 
CSPs. 

3. Personnel ascertain from appropriate information 
sources that the sterile microporous membrane filter 
used to sterilize CSP solutions, during either com- 
pounding or administration, is chemically and physi- 
cally compatible with the CSP. 

STERILIZATION OF HIGH-RISK LEVEL CSPS BY FILTRATION 

Commercially available sterile filters shall be approved for 
human-use applications in sterilizing pharmaceutical fluids. 
Sterile filters used to sterilize CSPs shall be pyrogen free and 
have a nominal pore size of 0.2 or 0.22 jim. They shall be 
certified by the manufacturer to retain at least 1 microor- 
ganisms of a strain of Brevundimonas (Pseudomonas) 
diminuta on each square centimeter of upstream filter sur- 
face area under conditions similar to those in which the 
CSPs will be sterilized (see High-Risk Conditions in High-Risk 
Level CSPs). 

The compounding supervisor shall ensure, directly or from 
appropriate documentation, that the filters are chemically 
and physically stable at the pressure and temperature condi- 
tions to be used, that they have enough capacity to filter 
the required volumes, and that they will achieve sterility and 
maintain prefiltration pharmaceutical quality, including 
strength of ingredients of the specific CSP. The filter dimen- 
sions and liquid material to be sterile-filtered shall permit 
the sterilization process to be completed rapidly, without 
the replacement of the filter during the process. When CSPs 
are known to contain excessive particulate matter, a prefilter 
of larger nominal pore size membrane is placed upstream 
from the sterilizing filter to remove gross particulate con- 
taminants in order to maximize the efficiency of the steril- 
izing filter. 

Filter units used to sterilize CSPs shall also be subjected to 
manufacturers' recommended integrity test, such as the 
bubble point test. 

Compounding personnel shall ascertain that selected fil- 
ters will achieve sterilization of the particular CSPs being 
sterilized. Large deviations from usual or expected chemical 
and physical properties of CSPs (e.g., water-miscible alco- 
hols) may cause undetectable damage to filter integrity and 
shrinkage of microorganisms to sizes smaller than filter nom- 
inal pore size. 

STERILIZATION OF HIGH-RISK LEVEL CSPS BY STEAM 

The process of thermal sterilization employing saturated 
steam under pressure, or autoclaving, is the preferred 
method to terminally sterilize aqueous preparations that 
have been verified to maintain their full chemical and physi- 
cal stability under the conditions employed (see Steam Steril- 
ization under Sterilization and Sterility Assurance of Com- 
pendia! Articles (1211)). To achieve sterility, all materials are 
to be exposed to steam at 121 0 under a pressure of about 1 

atmosphere or 15 psi for the duration verified by testing to 
achieve sterility of the items, which is usually 20 to 60 min- 
utes for CSPs. An allowance shall be made for the time re- 
quired for the material to reach 1210 before the sterilization 
exposure duration is timed. 

Not directly exposing items to pressurized steam may re- 
sult in survival of microbial organisms and spores. Before 
their sterilization, plastic, glass, and metal devices are tightly 
wrapped in low-particle-shedding paper or fabrics or sealed 
in envelopes that prevent poststerilization microbial penetra- 
tion. Immediately before filling ampuls and vials that will be 
steam sterilized, solutions are passed through a filter having 
a nominal pore size not larger than 1 .2 jim for removal of 
particulate matter. Sealed containers shall be able to gener- 
ate steam internally; thus, stoppered and crimped empty 
vials shall contain a small amount of moisture to generate 
steam. 

The description of steam sterilization conditions and dura- 
tion for specific CSPs shall be included in written documen- 
tation in the compounding facility. The effectiveness of 
steam sterilization shall be verified using appropriate BIs of 
Bacillus stearothermophilus (see Biological Indicators (1 035)) 
and other confirmation methods such as temperature-sens- 
ing devices (see Sterilization and Sterility Assurance of Com- 
pendia! Articles (1 211) and Sterility Tests (71 )). 

STERILIZATION OF HIGH-RISK LEVEL CSPS BY DRY HEAT 

Dry heat sterilization is usually done as a batch process in 
an oven designed for sterilization. Heated filtered air shall be 
evenly distributed throughout the chamber by a blower de- 
vice. The oven should be equipped with a system for con- 
trolling temperature and exposure period. Sterilization by 
dry heat requires higher temperatures and longer exposure 
times than does sterilization by steam. Dry heat shall be 
used only for those materials that cannot be sterilized by 
steam, when either the moisture would damage the mate- 
rial or the material is impermeable. During sterilization, suffi- 
cient space shall be left between materials to allow for good 
circulation of the hot air. The description of dry heat sterili- 
zation conditions and duration for specific CSPs shall be in- 
cluded in written documentation in the compounding facil- 
ity. The effectiveness of dry heat sterilization shall be verified 
using appropriate BIs of Bacillus subtilis (see Biological Indica- 
tors (1035)) and other confirmation methods such as tem- 
perature-sensing devices (see Sterilization and Sterility Assur- 
ance of Compendia! Articles (1 211) and Sterility Tests (71 )). 
NOTE—Dry heat sterilization may be performed at a lower 
temperature than may be effective for depyrogenation]. 

Depyrogenation by Dry Heat 

Dry heat depyrogenation shall be used to render glass- 
ware or containers such as vials free from pyrogens as well 
as viable microbes. A typical cycle would be 30 minutes at 
250°. The description of the dry heat depyrogenation cycle 
and duration for specific load items shall be included in 
written documentation in the compounding facility. The ef- 
fectiveness of the dry heat depyrogenation cycle shall be 
verified using endotoxin challenge vials (ECV5). The bacterial 
endotoxin test should be performed on the ECVs to verify 
that the cycle is capable of achieving a 3-log reduction in 
endotoxin (see Sterilization and Sterility Assurance of Com- 
pendia! Articles (1 211) and Bacterial Endotoxins Test (85)). 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY AND CONTROL 

Achieving and maintaining sterility and overall freedom 
from contamination of a CSP is dependent on the quality 
status of the components incorporated, the process utilized, 
personnel performance, and the environmental conditions 
under which the process is performed. The standards re- 
quired for the environmental conditions depend on the 
amount of exposure of the CSP to the immediate environ- 
ment anticipated during processing. The quality and control 
of environmental conditions for each risk level of operation 
are explained in this section. In addition, operations using 
nonsterile components require the use of a method of prep- 
aration designed to produce a sterile preparation. 

Exposure of Critical Sites 

Maintaining the sterility and cleanliness (i.e., freedom 
from sterile foreign materials) of critical sites is a primary 
safeguard for CSPs. Critical sites are locations that include 
any component or fluid pathway surfaces (e.g., vial septa, 
injection ports, beakers) or openings (e.g., opened ampuls, 
needle hubs) exposed and at risk of direct contact with air 
(e.g., ambient room or HEPA filtered), moisture (e.g., oral 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 11 

and mucosal secretions), or touch contamination. The risk 
of, or potential for, critical sites to be contaminated with 
microorganisms and foreign matter increases with increasing 
exposed area of the critical sites, the density or concentra- 
tion of contaminants, and exposure duration to worse than 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air. Examples include an opened 
ampul or vial stopper on a 1 0-mL or larger vial or an injec- 
tion port on a package of intravenous solution having an 
area larger than the point of a needle or the tip of a 
syringe. 

The nature of a critical site also affects the risk of contami- 
nation. The relatively rough, permeable surface of an elasto- 
meric closure retains microorganisms and other contami- 
nants after swabbing with a sterile 70% IPA pad more 
readily than does the smoother glass surface of the neck of 
an ampul. Therefore, the surface disinfection can be ex- 
pected to be more effective for an ampul. 

Protection of critical sites by precluding physical contact 
and airborne contamination shall be given the highest prior- 
ity in sterile compounding practice. Airborne contaminants, 
especially those generated by sterile compounding person- 
nel, are much more likely to reach critical sites than are 
contaminants that are adhering to the floor or other sur- 
faces below the work level. Furthermore, large and high- 
density particles that are generated and introduced by com- 
pounding manipulations and personnel have the potential 
to settle on critical sites even when those critical sites are 
exposed within ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air. 

ISO Class 5 Air Sources, Buffer Areas, and 
Ante-Areas 

The most common sources of ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air 
quality for exposure of critical sites are horizontal and verti- 
cal LAFWs, CAIs, and CACIs. A clean room (see Microbiologi- 
cal Evaluation of Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environ- 
ments (111 6)) is a compounding environment that is 

supplied with HEPA or HEPA-filtered air that meets ISO Class 
7 (see Table 1), the access to which is limited to personnel 
trained and authorized to perform sterile compounding and 
facility cleaning. A buffer area is an area that provides at 
least ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) air quality. 

Figure 1 is a conceptual representation of the placement 
of an ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) PEC in a segregated com- 
pounding area used for low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or 
less BUD. This plan depicts the most critical operation area 
located within the PEC in a designated area (see definition 
of Segregated Compounding Area) separated from activities 
not essential to the preparation of CSPs. Placement of de- 
vices (e.g., computers, printers) and objects (e.g., carts, 
cabinets) that are not essential to compounding in the seg- 
regated area should be restricted or limited, depending on 
their effect on air quality in the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) 
PEC. 

Conceptual representation of USP 

Chapter <797> facility requirements 

Figure 1. Conceptual representation of the placement of an 
ISO Class 5 PEC in a segregated compounding area used for 

low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or less BUD. 

Figure 2 is a conceptual representation of the arrangement 
of a facility for preparation of CSPs categorized as low-, me- 
dium-, and high-risk level. The quality of the environmental 
air increases with movement from the outer boundary to 
the direct compounding area (DCA). Placement of devices 
in ante-areas and buffer areas is dictated by their effect on 
the designated environmental quality of atmospheres and 
surfaces, which shall be verified by monitoring (see Viable 
and Nonviable Environmental Sampling (ES) Testing). It is the 
responsibility of each compounding facility to ensure that 
each source of ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment for 
exposure of critical sites and sterilization by filtration is prop- 
erly located, operated, maintained, monitored, and verified. 

Conceptual representation of USP 

Chapter <797> facility requirements 

Figure 2. Conceptual representation of the arrangement 
of a facility for preparation of CSPs categorized as low-, me- 

dium-, and high-risk level. 

Placement of devices (e.g., computers, printers) and ob- 
jects (e.g., carts, cabinets) that are not essential to com- 
pounding in buffer areas is dictated by their effect on the 
required environmental quality of air atmospheres and sur- 
faces, which shall be verified by monitoring (see Viable and 
Nonviable Environmental Sampling (ES) Testing). It is the re- 
sponsibility of each compounding facility to ensure that 



1 2 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

each source of ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment for 
exposure of critical sites and sterilization by filtration is prop- 
erly located, operated, maintained, monitored, and verified. 

Facility Design and Environmental Controls 

Compounding facilities are physically designed and envi- 
ronmentally controlled to minimize airborne contamination 
from contacting critical sites. These facilities shall also pro- 
vide a comfortable and well-lighted working environment, 
which typically includes a temperature of 20° or cooler, to 
maintain comfortable conditions for compounding person- 
nel to perform flawlessly when attired in the required asep- 
tic compounding garb. PECs typically include, but are not 
limited to, LAFWs, BSCs, CAIs, and CACIs, which provide an 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment for the exposure of 
critical sites. PECs shall maintain ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) or 
better conditions for 0.5-lim particles (dynamic operating 
conditions) while compounding CSPs. Secondary engineer- 
ing controls such as buffer areas and ante-areas generally 
serve as a core for the location of the PEC. Buffer areas are 
designed to maintain at least ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) con- 
ditions for 0.5-jim particles under dynamic conditions and 
ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) conditions for 0.5-jim and larger 
particles under dynamic conditions for the ante-areas. Air- 
borne contamination control is achieved in the PEC through 
the use of HEPA filters. The airflow in the PEC shall be unidi- 
rectional (laminar flow), and because of the particle collec- 
tion efficiency of the filter, the "first air" at the face of the 
filter is, for the purposes of aseptic compounding, free from 
airborne particulate contamination. HEPA-filtered air shall be 
supplied in critical areas (ISO Class 5, see Table 1) at a ve- 
locity sufficient to sweep particles away from the com- 
pounding area and maintain unidirectional airflow during 
operations. Proper design and control prevents turbulence 
and stagnant air in the critical area. In situ air pattern analy- 
sis via smoke studies shall be conducted at the critical area 
to demonstrate unidirectional airflow and sweeping action 
over and away from the product under dynamic conditions. 

The principles of HEPA-filtered unidirectional airflow in the 
work environment shall be understood and practiced in the 
compounding process in order to achieve the desired envi- 
ronmental conditions. Policies and procedures for maintain- 
ing and working within the PEC area shall be written and 
followed. The policies and procedures will be determined by 
the scope and risk levels of the aseptic compounding activi- 
ties utilized during the preparation of the CSPs. The CSP 
work environment is designed to have the cleanest work 
surfaces (PEC) located in a buffer area. The buffer area shall 
maintain at least ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) conditions for 
0.5-jim and larger particles under dynamic operating condi- 
tions. The room shall be segregated from surrounding, un- 
classified spaces to reduce the risk of contaminants being 
blown, dragged, or otherwise introduced into the filtered 
unidirectional airflow environment, and this segregation 
shall be continuously monitored. For rooms providing a 

physical separation through the use of walls, doors, and 
pass-throughs, a minimum differential positive pressure of 
0.02- to 0.05-inch water column is required. For buffer ar- 
eas not physically separated from the ante-areas, the princi- 
ple of displacement airflow shall be employed. This concept 
utilizes a low pressure differential, high airflow principle. Us- 
ing displacement airflow typically requires an air velocity of 
40 ft per minute or more from the buffer area across the 
line of demarcation into the ante-area. 

The displacement concept shall not be used for high-risk 
compounding.6 The PEC shall be placed within a buffer area 
in such a manner as to avoid conditions that could ad- 
versely affect their operation. For example, strong air cur- 
rents from opened doors, personnel traffic, or air streams 
from the HVAC systems can disrupt the unidirectional air- 
6 Iso 14644-4:2001 Cleanrooms and associated controlled environments— 
Design, construction, and start-up, Case Postale 56, CH-1 211 Geneve 20, 
Switzerland, tel. +41 22 749 01 11. 

flow in open-faced workbenches. The operators may also 
create disruptions in airflow by their own movements and 
by the placement of objects onto the work surface. The PEC 
shall be placed out of the traffic flow and in a manner to 
avoid disruption from the HVAC system and room cross- 
drafts. Room air exchanges are typically expressed as 
ACPHs. Adequate HEPA-filtered airflow supplied to the buffer 
area and ante-area is required to maintain cleanliness classi- 
fication during operational activity through the number of 
ACPHs. Factors that should be considered when determining 
air-change requirements include number of personnel work- 
ing in the room and compounding processes that generate 
particulates, as well as temperature effects. An ISO Class 7 
(see Table 1) buffer area and ante-area supplied with HEPA- 
filtered air shall receive an ACPH of not less than 30. The 
PEC is a good augmentation to generating air changes in 
the air supply of an area but cannot be the sole source of 
HEPA-filtered air. If the area has an ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) 
recirculating device, a minimum of 15 ACPHs through the 
area supply HEPA filters is adequate, providing the com- 
bined ACPH is not less than 30. More air changes may be 
required, depending on the number of personnel and 
processes. HEPA-filtered supply air shall be introduced at the 
ceiling, and returns should be mounted low on the wall, 
creating a general top-down dilution of area air with HEPA- 
filtered make-up air. Ceiling-mounted returns are not rec- 
ommended. All HEPA filters should be efficiency tested using 
the most penetrating particle size and should be leak tested 
at the factory and then leak tested again in situ after instal- 

Activities and tasks carried out within the buffer area shall 
be limited to only those necessary when working within a 

controlled environment. Only the furniture, equipment, sup- 
plies, and other material required for the compounding ac- 
tivities to be performed shall be brought into the area, and 
they shall be nonpermeable, nonshedding, cleanable, and 
resistant to disinfectants. Whenever such items are brought 
into the area, they shall first be cleaned and disinfected. 
Whenever possible, equipment and other items used in the 
buffer area shall not be taken out of the area except for 
calibration, servicing, or other activities associated with the 
proper maintenance of the item. 

The surfaces of ceilings, walls, floors, fixtures, shelving, 
counters, and cabinets in the buffer area shall be smooth, 
impervious, free from cracks and crevices, and nonshedding, 
thereby promoting cleanability and minimizing spaces in 
which microorganisms and other contaminants may accu- 
mulate. The surfaces shall be resistant to damage by disin- 
fectant agents. Junctures of ceilings to walls shall be coved 
or caulked to avoid cracks and crevices where dirt can accu- 
mulate. If ceilings consist of inlaid panels, the panels shall 
be impregnated with a polymer to render them impervious 
and hydrophobic, and they shall be caulked around each 
perimeter to seal them to the support frame. Walls may be 
constructed of flexible material (e.g., heavy gauge polymer), 
panels locked together and sealed, or of epoxy-coated gyp- 
sum board. Preferably, floors are overlaid with wide sheet 
vinyl flooring with heat-welded seams and coving to the 
sidewall. Dust-collecting overhangs, such as ceiling utility 
pipes, and ledges, such as windowsills, should be avoided. 
The exterior lens surface of ceiling lighting fixtures should 
be smooth, mounted flush, and sealed. Any other penetra- 
tions through the ceiling or walls shall be sealed. The buffer 
area shall not contain sources of water (sinks) or floor 
drains. Work surfaces shall be constructed of smooth, imper- 
vious materials, such as stainless steel or molded plastic, so 
that they are easily cleaned and disinfected. Carts should be 
of stainless steel wire, nonporous plastic, or sheet metal con- 
struction with good quality, cleanable casters to promote 
mobility. Storage shelving, counters, and cabinets shall be 
smooth, impervious, free from cracks and crevices, nonshed- 
7 By definition (lEST RP CC 001.4), HEPA filters are a minimum of 99.97% 
efficient when tested using 0.3-lim thermally generated particles and a pho- 
tometer or rated at their most penetrating particle size using a particle 
counter. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 1 3 

ding, cleanable, and disinfectable; their number, design, 
and manner of installation shall promote effective cleaning 
and disinfection. 

Placement of Primary Engineering Controls 

PECs (LAFWs, BSCs, CAIs, and CACIs) shall be located 
within a restricted access ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) buffer 
area (see Figure 1), with the following CAI/CACI exceptions 
below: 

• Only authorized personnel and materials required for 
compounding and cleaning shall be permitted in the 
buffer area. 

• Presterilization procedures for high-risk level CSPs, such 
as weighing and mixing, shall be completed in no 
worse than an ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) environment. 

• PECs shall be located out of traffic patterns and away 
from room air currents that could disrupt the intended 
airflow patterns. 

CAIs and CACIs shall be placed in an ISO Class 7 (see 
Table 1) buffer area unless they meet all of the following 
conditions: 

• The isolator shall provide isolation from the room and 
maintain ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) during dynamic op- 
erating conditions, including transferring ingredients, 
components, and devices into and out of the isolator 
and during preparation of CSPs. 

• Particle counts sampled approximately 6 to 12 inches 
upstream of the critical exposure site shall maintain ISO 
Class 5 (see Table 1) levels during compounding opera- 
tions. 

• Not more than 3520 particles (0.5 and larger) per 3 shall be counted during material transfer, with the 
particle counter probe located as near to the transfer 
door as possible without obstructing the transfer.8 

It is incumbent on the compounding personnel to obtain 
documentation from the manufacturer that the CAI/CACI 
will meet this standard when located in environments where 
the background particle counts exceed ISO Class 8 (see Ta- 
ble 1) for and larger particles. When isolators are 
used for sterile compounding, the recovery time to achieve 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air quality shall be documented 
and internal procedures developed to ensure that adequate 
recovery time is allowed after material transfer before and 
during compounding operations. 

If the PEC is a CAl or CACI that does not meet the re- 
quirements above or is a LAFW or BSC that cannot be lo- 
cated within an ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) buffer area, then 
only low-risk level nonhazardous and radiopharmaceutical 
CSPs pursuant to a physician order for a specific patient 
may be prepared, and administration of the CSP shall com- 
mence within 12 hours of preparation or as recommended 
in the manufacturer's package insert, whichever is less. 

Viable and Nonviable Environmental Sampling 
(ES) Testing 

The ES program should provide information to staff and 
leadership to demonstrate that the PEC is maintaining an 
environment within the compounding area that consistently 
ensures acceptably low viable and nonviable particle levels. 
The compounding area includes the ISO Class 5 (see Table 
1) PEC (LAFW5, BSCs, CAIs, and CACI5), buffer areas, ante- 
areas, and segregated compounding areas. 

Environmental sampling shall occur as part a comprehen- 
sive quality management program and shall occur minimally 
under any of the following conditions: 

as part of the commissioning and certification of new 
facilities and equipment; 

8 Sample procedures are detailed in CETA Applications Guide CAG- 
002-2006—section 2.09. 

• following any servicing of facilities and equipment; 
• as part of the re-certification of facilities and equipment 

(i.e., every 6 months); 
• in response to identified problems with end products or 

staff technique; or 
• in response to issues with CSPs, observed compounding 

personnel work practices, or patient-related infections 
(where the CSP is being considered as a potential 
source of the infection). 

ENVIRONMENTAL NONVIABLE PARTICLE TESTI NC PROGRAM 

A program to sample nonviable airborne particles differs 
from that for viable particles in that it is intended to directly 
measure the performance of the engineering controls used 
to create the various levels of air cleanliness, for example, 
ISO Class 5, 7, or 8 (see Table 1). 

Engineering Control Performance Verification—PECs 
(LAFWs, BSCs, CAIs, and CACI5) and secondary engineering 
controls (buffer and ante-areas) are essential components of 
the overall contamination control strategy for aseptic com- 
pounding. As such, it is imperative that they perform as 
designed and that the resulting levels of contamination be 
within acceptable limits. Certification procedures such as 
those outlined in Certification Guide for Sterile Compounding 
Facilities (CAG-003-2006)9 shall be performed by a qualified 
individual no less than every 6 months and whenever the 
device or room is relocated or altered or major service to 
the facility is performed. 

Total Particle Counts—Certification that each ISO classi- 
fied area, for example, ISO Class 5, 7, and 8 (see Table 1), is 
within established guidelines shall be performed no less 
than every 6 months and whenever the LAFW, BSC, CAl, or 
CACI is relocated or the physical structure of the buffer area 
or ante-area has been altered. Testing shall be performed by 
qualified operators using current, state-of-the-art electronic 
equipment with results of the following: 

• ISO Class 5: not more than 3520 particles 0.5 urn and 
larger size per cubic meter of air for any LAFW, BSC, 
CAl, and CACI; 

• ISO Class 7: not more than 352,000 particles of 0.5 
size and larger per cubic meter of air for any buffer 
area; 

• ISO Class 8: not more than 3,520,000 particles or 0.5 
urn size and larger per cubic meter of air for any ante- 
area. 

All certification records shall be maintained and reviewed 
by supervising personnel or other designated employees to 
ensure that the controlled environments comply with the 
proper air cleanliness, room pressures, and ACPHs. 

PRESSURE DIFFERENTIAL MONITORING 

A pressure gauge or velocity meter shall be installed to 
monitor the pressure differential or airflow between the 
buffer area and the ante-area and between the ante-area 
and the general environment outside the compounding 
area. The results shall be reviewed and documented on a 

log at least every work shift (minimum frequency shall be at 
least daily) or by a continuous recording device. The pres- 
sure between the ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) and the general 
pharmacy area shall not be less than 5 Pa (0.02 inch water 
column). In facilities where low- and medium-risk level CSPs 
are prepared, differential airflow shall maintain a minimum 
velocity of 0.2 meters per second (40 feet per minute) be- 
tween buffer area and ante-area. 

Controlled Environment Testing Association, 1500 Sunday Drive, Ste. 102, 
Raleigh, NC 27607; www.CETAinternational.org. 



14 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

ENVIRONMENTAL VIABLE AIRBORNE PARTICLE TESTING 
PROGRAM 

The risk of contaminating a CSP prepared under low-risk 
level and medium-risk level conditions is highly dependent 
on proper hand hygiene and garbing practices, compound- 
ing personnel aseptic technique, and the presence of surface 
contamination, assuming that all work is performed in a cer- 
tified and properly functioning ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) PEC 
and secondary engineering controls, ISO Class 7 (see Table 
1) buffer area, and ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) ante-area. 
High-risk level CSPs pose the greatest threat to patients be- 
cause compounding personnel are tasked with the require- 
ment of processing nonsterile components and devices in 
order to achieve sterility. 

A sampling program in conjunction with an observational 
audit is designed to evaluate the competency of compound- 
ing personnel work practices, allowing for the implementa- 
tion of corrective actions on an ongoing basis (see Personnel 
Training and Competency Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work 
Practices and Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures). 

Sampling Plan—An appropriate environmental sampling 
plan shall be developed for airborne viable particles based 
on a risk assessment of compounding activities performed. 

Selected sampling sites shall include locations within each 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment and in the ISO Class 
7 and 8 (see Table 1) areas and in the segregated com- 
pounding areas at greatest risk of contamination (e.g., work 
areas near the ISO Class 5 see Table 1] environment, coun- 
ters near doors, pass-through boxes). The plan shall include 
sample location, method of collection, frequency of sam- 
pling, volume of air sampled, and time of day as related to 
activity in the compounding area and action levels. 

Review of the data generated during a sampling event 
may detect elevated amounts of airborne microbial bi- 
oburden; such changes may be indicative of adverse 
changes within the environment. It is recommended that 
compounding personnel refer to Microbiological Evaluation of 
Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environments (111 6) and 
the CDC's "Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control 
in Healthcare Facilities, 2003" for more information. 

Growth Medium—A general microbiological growth me- 
dium such as Soybean—Casein Digest Medium shall be used 
to support the growth of bacteria. Malt extract agar or 
some other media that supports the growth of fungi shall 
be used in high-risk level compounding environments. Me- 
dia used for surface sampling must be supplemented with 
additives to neutralize the effects of disinfecting agents 
(e.g., TSA with lecithin and polysorbate 80). 

Viable Air Sampling—Evaluation of airborne microorgan- 
isms using volumetric collection methods in the controlled 
air environments (LAFWs, CAIs, clean room or buffer areas, 
and ante-areas) shall be performed by properly trained indi- 
viduals for all compounding risk levels. 

Impaction shall be the preferred method of volumetric air 
sampling. Use of settling plates for qualitative air sampling 
may not be able to determine adequately the quality of air 
in the controlled environment. The settling of particles by 
gravity onto culture plates depends on the particle size and 
may be influenced by air movement. Consequently, the 
number of colony-forming units (cfu) on a settling plate 
may not always relate to the concentrations of viable parti- 
cles in the sampled environment. 

For low-, medium-, and high-risk level compounding, air 
sampling shall be performed at locations that are prone to 
contamination during compounding activities and during 
other activities such as staging, labeling, gowning, and 
cleaning. Locations shall include zones of air backwash tur- 
bulence within LAFW and other areas where air backwash 
turbulence may enter the compounding area (doorways, in 
and around ISO Class 5 see Table 1] PEC and environ- 
ments). Consideration should be given to the overall effect 
the chosen sampling method will have on the unidirectional 
airflow within a compounding environment. 

For low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or less BUD prepared 
in a PEC (LAFW5, BSCs, CAIs) that maintains an ISO Class 5 
(see Table 1), air sampling shall be performed at locations 
inside the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment and other 
areas that are in close proximity to the ISO Class 5 (see 
Table 1) environment during the certification of the PEC. 

Air Sampling Devices—There are a number of manufac- 
turers of electronic air sampling equipment. It is important 
that personnel refer to the manufacturer's recommended 
procedures when using the equipment to perform volumet- 
ric air procedures. The instructions in the manu- 
facturer's user s manual for verification and use of electric air 
samplers that actively collect volumes of air for evaluation 
must be followed. A sufficient volume of air (400 to 1000 
liters) shall be tested at each location in order to maximize 
sensitivity. The volumetric air sampling devices need to be 
serviced and calibrated as recommended by the manufac- 
tu rer. 

It is recommended that compounding personnel also refer 
to Methodology and Instrumentation for Quantitation of Viable 
Airborne Microorganisms under Microbiological Evaluation of 
Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environments (111 6), 
which provides more information on the use of volumetric 
air samplers and volume of air that should be sampled to 
detect environmental bioburden excursions. 

Air Sampling Frequency and Process—Air sampling 
shall be performed at least semiannually (i.e., every 6 
months) as part of the re-certification of facilities and equip- 
ment. If compounding occurs in multiple locations within 
an institution (e.g., main pharmacy, satellites), environmen- 
tal sampling is required for each individual compounding 
area. A sufficient volume of air shall be sampled and the 
manufacturer's guidelines for use of the electronic air sam- 
pling equipment followed. Any facility construction or 
equipment servicing may require that air sampling be per- 
formed during these events. 

Incubation Period—At the end of the designated sam- 
pling or exposure period for air sampling activities, the mi- 
crobial growth media plates are recovered and their covers 
secured (e.g., taped), and they are inverted and incubated 
at a temperature and for a time period conducive to multi- 
plication of microorganisms. ISA should be incubated at 
30° to 35° for 48 to 72 hours. Malt extract agar or other 
suitable fungal media should be incubated at 26° to 30° for 
5 to 7 days. The number of discrete colonies of microorgan- 
isms are counted and reported as cfu and documented on 
an environmental sampling form. Counts from air sampling 
need to be transformed into cfu per cubic meter of air and 
evaluated for adverse trends. 

Action Levels, Documentation, and Data Evaluation— 
The value of viable microbial sampling of the air in the com- 
pounding environment is realized when the data are used to 
identify and correct an unacceptable situation. Sampling 
data shall be collected and reviewed on a periodic basis as a 
means of evaluating the overall control of the compounding 
environment. If an activity consistently shows elevated levels 
of microbial growth, competent microbiology personnel 
shall be consulted. 

Any cfu count that exceeds its respective action level (see 
Table 2) should prompt a re-evaluation of the adequacy of 
personnel work practices, cleaning procedures, operational 
procedures, and air filtration efficiency within the aseptic 
compounding location. An investigation into the source of 
the contamination shall be conducted. Sources could in- 
clude HVAC systems, damaged HEPA filters, and changes in 
personnel garbing or work practices. The source of the 
problem shall be eliminated, the affected area cleaned, and 
resampling performed. 

Counts of cfu are to be used as an approximate measure 
of the environmental microbial bioburden. Action levels are 
determined on the basis of cfu data gathered at each sam- 
pling location and trended over time. The numbers in Table 
2 should be used only as guidelines. Regardless of the num- 
ber of cfu identified in the pharmacy, further corrective ac- 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 1 5 

tions will be dictated by the identification of microorgan- 
isms recovered (at least the genus level) by an appropriate 
credentialed laboratory of any microbial bioburden captured 
as a cfu using an impaction air sampler. Highly pathogenic 
microorganisms (e.g., Gram-negative rods, coagulase posi- 
tive staphylococcus, molds and yeasts) can be potentially 
fatal to patients receiving CSPs and must be immediately 
remedied, regardless of cfu count, with the assistance of a 

competent microbiologist, infection control professional, or 
industrial hygienist. 

Table 2. Recommended Action Levels for 
Microbial Contamination* 

t(cfu per cubic meter 1000 liters] of air per plate) 

Classification Air Sample f 
ISO Class 5 > 1 

ISO Class 7 > 10 

ISO Class 8 or worse > 100 
* Guidance for Industry—Sterile Drug Products Produced by Aseptic 
Processing—Current Good Manufacturing Practice—US HHS, FDA Sep- 
tember 2004. 

Additional Personnel Requirements 

Food, drinks, and materials exposed in patient care and 
treatment areas shall not enter ante-areas, buffer areas, or 
segregated compounding areas where components and in- 
gredients of CSPs are present. When compounding activities 
require the manipulation of a patient's blood-derived or 
other biological material (e.g., radiolabeling a patient's or 
donor's white blood cells), the manipulations shall be clearly 
separated from routine material-handling procedures and 
equipment used in CSP preparation activities, and they shall 
be controlled by specific SOPs in order to avoid any cross- 
contamination. Packaged compounding supplies and com- 
ponents, such as needles, syringes, tubing sets, and small- 
and large-volume parenterals, should be uncartoned and 
wiped down with a disinfectant that does not leave a resi- 
due (e.g., sterile 70% IPA), when possible in an ante-area of 
ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) air quality, before being passed 
into the buffer areas. Personnel hand hygiene and garbing 
procedures are also performed in the ante-area, which may 
contain a sink that enables hands-free use with a closed sys- 
tem of soap dispensing to minimize the risk of extrinsic con- 
tamination. There shall be some demarcation designation 
that separates the ante-area from the buffer area. Adequate 
provision for performing antiseptic hand cleansing using an 
alcohol-based surgical hand scrub with persistent activity fol- 
lowed by the donning of sterile gloves should be provided 
after entry into the buffer area. 

Cleaning and Disinfecting the Compounding 
Area 

Environmental contact is a major source of microbial con- 
tamination of CSPs. Consequently, scrupulous attention to 
cleaning and disinfecting the sterile compounding areas is 
required to minimize this as a source of CSP contamination. 

The cleaning and disinfecting practices and frequencies in 
this section apply to ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) compounding 
areas for exposure of critical sites as well as buffer areas, 
ante-areas, and segregated compounding areas. Com- 
pounding personnel are responsible for ensuring that the 
frequency of cleaning is in accordance with the require- 
ments stated in Table 3 and determining the cleaning and 
disinfecting products to be used (see Appendix I). Any or- 
ganizational or institutional policies regarding disinfectant 
selection should be considered by compounding personnel. 
All cleaning and disinfecting practices and policies for the 
compounding of CSPs shall be included in written SOPs and 
shall be followed by all compounding personnel. 

The selection and use of disinfectants in healthcare facili- 
ties is guided by several properties, such as microbicidal ac- 
tivity, inactivation by organic matter, residue, and shelf life 
(see Appendix II). In general, highly toxic disinfectants, such 
as glutaraldehyde, are not used on housekeeping surfaces 
(e.g., floors, countertops). Many disinfectants registered by 
the EPA are one-step disinfectants. This means that the dis- 
infectant has been formulated to be effective in the pres- 
ence of light to moderate soiling without a pre-cleaning 
step. 

Surfaces in LAFWs, BSCs, CAIs, and CACIs, which are inti- 
mate to the exposure of critical sites, require disinfecting 
more frequently than do housekeeping surfaces such as 
walls and ceilings. Disinfecting sterile compounding areas 
shall occur on a regular basis at the intervals noted in Table 
3 when spills occur, when the surfaces are visibly soiled, and 
when microbial contamination is known to have been or is 
suspected of having been introduced into the compounding 
areas. 

When the surface to be disinfected has heavy soiling, a 

cleaning step is recommended prior to the application of 
the disinfectant. Trained compounding personnel are re- 
sponsible for developing, implementing, and practicing the 
procedures for cleaning and disinfecting the DCAs written in 
the SOPs. Cleaning and disinfecting shall occur before com- 
pounding is performed. Items shall be removed from all ar- 
eas to be cleaned, and surfaces shall be cleaned by remov- 
ing loose material and residue from spills; for example, 
water-soluble solid residues are removed with sterile water 
(for injection or irrigation) and low-shedding wipes. This 
shall be followed by wiping with a residue-free disinfecting 
agent such as sterile 70% IPA, which is allowed to dry 
before compounding begins. 

Cleaning and disinfecting surfaces in the LAFWs, BSCs, 
CAIs, and CACIs are the most critical practices before the 
preparation of CSPs. Consequently, such surfaces shall be 
cleaned and disinfected frequently, including at the begin- 
fling of each work shift, before each batch preparation is 
started, every 30 minutes during continuous compounding 
periods of individual CSPs, when there are spills, and when 
surface contamination is known or suspected from procedu- 
ral breaches. 

Work surfaces in the ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) buffer areas 
and ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) ante-areas as well as segre- 
gated compounding areas shall be cleaned and disinfected 
at least daily, and dust and debris shall be removed when 
necessary from storage sites for compounding ingredients 
and supplies using a method that does not degrade the ISO 
Class 7 or 8 (see Table 1) air quality (see Disinfectants and 
Antiseptics (1 072)). 

Table 3. Minimum Frequency of Cleaning and Disinfecting Com- 
pounding Areas 

Site Minimum Frequency 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) 

Primary Engineering 
Control (e.g., LAFW, 
BSC, CAl, CACI) 

At the beginning of each shift, before 
each batch, not longer than 30 mm- 
utes following the previous surface 
disinfection when ongoing com- 
pounding activities are occurring, af- 
ter spills, and when surface 
contamination is known or suspected 

Counters and easily clean- 
able_work_surfaces 

Daily 

Floors Daily 

Walls Monthly 
Ceilings Monthly 
Storage shelving Monthly 

Floors in the buffer or clean area, ante-area, and segre- 
gated compounding area are cleaned by mopping with a 
cleaning and disinfecting agent once daily at a time when 
no aseptic operations are in progress. Mopping shall be per- 
formed by trained personnel using approved agents and 



1 6 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

procedures described in the written SOPs. It is incumbent 
on compounding personnel to ensure that such cleaning is 
performed properly. In the buffer or clean area, ante-area, 
and segregated compounding area, walls, ceilings, and 
shelving shall be cleaned and disinfected monthly. Cleaning 
and disinfecting agents are to be used with careful consider- 
ation of compatibilities, effectiveness, and inappropriate or 
toxic residues (see Appendix ). Their schedules of use and 
methods of application shall be in accordance with written 
SOPs and followed by custodial or compounding personnel. 

All cleaning materials, such as wipers, sponges, and mops, 
shall be nonshedding, preferably composed of synthetic 
micro fibers, and dedicated to use in the buffer or clean 
area, ante-area, and segregated compounding areas and 
shall not be removed from these areas except for disposal. 
Floor mops may be used in both the buffer or clean area 
and ante-area, but only in that order. Ideally, all cleaning 
tools are discarded after one use by collection in suitable 
plastic bags and removed with minimal agitation. If cleaning 
materials (e.g., mops) are reused, procedures shall be devel- 
oped (based on manufacturers' recommendations) that en- 
sure that the effectiveness of the cleaning device is main- 
tained and that repeated use does not add to the bioburden 
of the area being cleaned. 

Supplies and equipment removed from shipping cartons 
shall be wiped with a suitable disinfecting agent (e.g., sterile 
70% IPA) delivered from a spray bottle or other suitable 
delivery method. After the disinfectant is sprayed or wiped 
on a surface to be disinfected, the disinfectant shall be al- 
lowed to dry, during which time the item shall not be used 
for compounding purposes. 

Wiping with small sterile 70% IPA swabs that are commer- 
cially available in individual foil-sealed packages (or a com- 
parable method) is preferred for disinfecting entry points on 
bags and vials, allowing the IPA to dry before piercing stop- 
pers with sterile needles and breaking necks of ampuls. The 
surface of the sterile 70% IPA swabs used for disinfecting 
entry points of sterile packages and devices shall not contact 
any other object before contacting the surface of the entry 
point. Sterile 70% IPA wetted gauze pads or other particle- 
generating material shall not be used to disinfect the sterile 
entry points of packages and devices. 

When sterile supplies are received in sealed pouches de- 
signed to keep them sterile until opening, the sterile sup- 
plies may be removed from the covering pouches as the 
supplies are introduced into the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) 
PEC (LAFW, BSC, CAl, CACI) without the need to disinfect 
the individual sterile supply items. No shipping or other ex- 
ternal cartons may be taken into the buffer or clean area or 
segregated compounding area. 

Personnel Cleansing and Garbing 

The careful cleansing of hands and arms and the correct 
donning of PPE by compounding personnel constitute the 
first major step in preventing microbial contamination in 
CSPs. Personnel shall also be thoroughly competent and 
highly motivated to perform flawless aseptic manipulations 
with ingredients, devices, and components of CSPs. Squa- 
mous cells are normally shed from the human body at a 

rate of 1 06 or more per hour, and those skin particles are 
laden with 10 11 When individuals are exper- 
iencing rashes, sunburn, weeping sores, conjunctivitis, active 
respiratory infection, as well as when they wear cosmetics, 
they shed these particles at even higher rates. Particles shed 
from compounding personnel pose an increased risk of mi- 
crobial contamination of critical sites of CSPs. Therefore, 
compounding personnel with such conditions as mentioned 
above shall be excluded from working in ISO Class 5 (see 

10 Agalloco Akers JE. Aseptic Processing: A Vision of the Future. Pharmaceuti- 
cal Technology, 2005. Aseptic Processing supplement, Si 6. 
11 Eaton T. Microbial Risk Assessment for Aseptically Prepared Products. Am 
Pharm Rev. 2005; 8 (5, Sep/Oct): 46—5 1. 

Table 1) and ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) compounding areas 
until their conditions are remedied. 

Before entering the buffer area or segregated compound- 
ing area (see Low-Risk Level CSPs with 12-Hour or Less BUD), 
compounding personnel shall remove personal outer gar- 
ments (e.g., bandannas, coats, hats, jackets, scarves, sweat- 
ers, vests); all cosmetics, because they shed flakes and parti- 
cles; and all hand, wrist, and other visible jewelry or 
piercings (e.g., earrings, lip or eyebrow piercings) that can 
interfere with the effectiveness of PPE (e.g., fit of gloves and 
cuffs of sleeves). The wearing of artificial nails or extenders 
is prohibited while working in the sterile compounding envi- 
ronment. Natural nails shall be kept neat and trimmed. 

Personnel shall don the following PPE in an order that 
proceeds from those activities considered the dirtiest to 
those considered the cleanest. Garbing activities considered 
the dirtiest include donning of dedicated shoes or shoe cov- 
ers, head and facial hair covers (e.g., beard covers in addi- 
tion to face masks), and face masks/eye shields. Eye shields 
are optional unless working with irritants such as germicidal 
disinfecting agents or when preparing hazardous drugs. 

After donning dedicated shoes or shoe covers, head and 
facial hair covers, and face masks, a hand cleansing proce- 
dure shall be performed by removing debris from under- 
neath fingernails using a nail cleaner under running warm 
water followed by vigorous hand washing. Hands and fore- 
arms shall be washed to the elbows for at least 30 seconds 
with soap (either nonantimicrobial or antimicrobial) and 
water while in the ante-area. The use of antimicrobial scrub 
brushes is not recommended because they can cause skin 
irritation and skin damage. Hands and forearms to the 
elbows will be completely dried using either lint-free dispos- 
able towels or an electronic hand dryer. After completion of 
hand washing, a nonshedding gown with sleeves that fit 
snugly around the wrists and enclosed at the neck is 
donned. Gowns designated for buffer area use shall be 
worn, and preferably they should be disposable. If reusable 
gowns are worn, they should be laundered appropriately for 
buffer area use. 

Once inside the buffer area or segregated compounding 
area (see Low-Risk Level CSPs with 12-Hour or Less BUD), and 
prior to donning sterile powder-free gloves, antiseptic hand 
cleansing shall be performed using a waterless alcohol-based 
surgical hand scrub with persistent 12 following man- 
ufacturers' recommendations. Hands are allowed to dry 
thoroughly before donning sterile gloves. 

Sterile gloves shall be the last item donned before com- 
pounding begins. Gloves become contaminated when they 
contact nonsterile surfaces during compounding activities. 
Disinfection of contaminated gloved hands may be accom- 
plished by wiping or rubbing sterile 70% IPA to all contact 
surface areas of the gloves and letting the gloved hands dry 
thoroughly. Only use gloves that have been tested for com- 
patibility with alcohol disinfection by the manufacturer. Rou- 
tine application of sterile 70% IPA shall occur throughout 
the compounding process and whenever nonsterile surfaces 
(e.g. vials, counter tops, chairs, carts) are touched. Gloves 
on hands shall also be routinely inspected for holes, punc- 
tures, or tears and replaced immediately if such are de- 
tected. Antiseptic hand cleansing shall be performed as indi- 
cated above. Compounding personnel shall be trained and 
evaluated in the avoidance of touching critical sites. 

When compounding personnel exit the compounding 
area during a work shift, the exterior gown may be re- 
moved and retained in the compounding area if not visibly 
soiled, to be re-donned during that same work shift only. 
However, shoe covers, hair and facial hair covers, face 
masks/eye shields, and gloves shall be replaced with new 
ones before re-entering the compounding area, and proper 
hand hygiene shall be performed. 

During high-risk compounding activities that precede ter- 
minal sterilization, such as weighing and mixing of nonster- 
12 Guideline for Hand Hygiene in Health care Settings, MMWR, October 25, 
2002, vol. 51, No. RR-16 available on the Internet at http://www.cdc.gov/ 
handhygiene/. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 1 7 

lie ingredients, compounding personnel shall be garbed and 
gloved the same as when performing compounding in an 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment. Properly garbed and 
gloved compounding personnel who are exposed to air 
quality that is either known or suspected to be worse than 
ISO Class 7 (see Table 7) shall re-garb PPE along with wash- 
ing their hands properly, performing antiseptic hand cleans- 
ing with a waterless alcohol-based surgical hand scrub, and 
donning sterile gloves upon re-entering the ISO Class 7 (see 
Table 1) buffer area. When CAis and CACIs are the source of 
the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment, the garbing and 
gloving requirements for compounding personnel should be 
as described above, unless the isolator manufacturer can 
provide written documentation based on validated environ- 
mental testing that any component(s) of PPE or personnel 
cleansing are not required. 

Personnel Training and Competency 
Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices, 

and Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures 

Personnel who prepare CSPs shall be trained conscien- 
tiously and skillfully by expert personnel and through mul- 
timedia instructional sources and professional publications in 
the theoretical principles and practical skills of garbing pro- 
cedures, aseptic work practices, achieving and maintaining 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 7) environmental conditions, and 
cleaning and disinfection procedures. This training shall be 
completed and documented before any compounding per- 
sonnel begin to prepare CSPs. Compounding personnel 
shall complete didactic training, pass written competence 
assessments, undergo skill assessment using observational 
audit tools, and media-fill testing (see Appendices Ill—ti). 

Media-fill testing of aseptic work skills shall be performed 
initially before beginning to prepare CSPs and at least annu- 
ally thereafter for low- and medium-risk level compounding 
and semiannually for high-risk level compounding. 

Compounding personnel who fail written tests or observa- 
tional audits or whose media-fill test vials have one or more 
units showing visible microbial contamination shall be re- 
instructed and re-evaluated by expert compounding person- 
nel to ensure correction of all aseptic work practice deficien- 
cies. Compounding personnel shall pass all evaluations prior 
to resuming compounding of sterile preparations. in addi- 
tion to didactic evaluation and aseptic media fill, com- 
pounding personnel must demonstrate proficiency of proper 
hand hygiene, garbing, and consistent cleaning procedures. 

in the event that cleaning and disinfecting procedures are 
also performed by other support personnel (e.g., institu- 
tional environmental services, housekeeping), thorough 
training of proper hand hygiene, garbing, and cleaning and 
disinfection procedures shall be done by a qualified aseptic 
compounding expert. After completion of training, support 
personnel shall routinely undergo performance evaluation of 
proper hand hygiene, garbing, and all applicable cleaning 
and disinfecting procedures conducted by a qualified aseptic 
compounding expert. 

COMPETENCY EVALUATION OF GARBiNG AND ASEPTIC 

WORK PRACTICE 

The risk of contaminating a CSP prepared under low-risk 
level and medium-risk level conditions is highly dependent 
on proper hand hygiene and garbing practices, compound- 
ing personnel aseptic technique, and the presence of surface 
contamination, assuming that all work is performed in a cer- 
tified and properly functioning ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) PEC 
and secondary engineering controls, ISO Class 7 (see Table 
7) buffer area, and ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) ante-area. 
High-risk level CSPs pose the greatest threat to patients be- 
cause compounding personnel are tasked with the require- 
ment of processing nonsterile components and devices in 
order to achieve sterility. Compounding personnel shall be 

evaluated initially prior to beginning compounding CSPs 
and whenever an aseptic media fill is performed using a 
form such as the Sample Form for Assessing Hand Hygiene 
and Garbing Related Practices of Compounding Personnel (see 
Appendix Ill) and the personnel glove fingertip sampling 
procedures indicated below. 

Aseptic Work Practice Assessment and Evaluation via 
Personnel Glove Fingertip Sampling—Sampling of com- 
pounding personnel glove fingertips shall be performed for 
all CSP risk level compounding because direct touch con- 
tamination is the most likely source of introducing microor- 
ganisms into CSPs prepared by humans. Glove fingertip 
sampling shall be used to evaluate the competency of per- 
sonnel in performing hand hygiene and garbing procedures 
in addition to educating compounding personnel on proper 
work practices, which include frequent and repeated glove 
disinfection using sterile 70% IPA during actual compound- 
ing of CSPs. All personnel shall demonstrate competency in 
proper hand hygiene and garbing procedures and in aseptic 
work practices (e.g., disinfection of component surfaces, 
routine disinfection of gloved hands). 

Sterile contact agar plates shall be used to sample the 
gloved fingertips of compounding personnel after garbing 
in order to assess garbing competency and after completing 
the media-fill preparation (without applying sterile 70% IPA) 
in order to assess the adequacy of aseptic work practices 
prior to being initially allowed to prepare CSPs for human 
use and for more experienced personnel to maintain their 
qualifications to prepare CSPs for human use. 

Garbing And Gloving Competency Evaluation—Com- 
pounding personnel shall be visually observed during the 
process of performing hand hygiene and garbing proce- 
dures (see Personnel Cleansing and Garbing under Personnel 
Training and Evaluation in Aseptic Manipulation Skills above). 
The visual observation shall be documented on a form such 
as the Sample Form for Assessing Hand Hygiene and Garbing 
Related Practices of Compounding Personnel (see Appendix Ill) 
and maintained to provide a permanent record and long- 
term assessment of personnel competency. 

Gloved Fingertip Sampling—All compounding person- 
nel shall successfully complete an initial competency evalua- 
tion and gloved fingertip/thumb sampling procedure (zero 
cfu) no less than three times before initially being allowed 
to compound CSPs for human use. Immediately after the 
compounding employee completes the hand hygiene and 
garbing procedure (e.g., donning of sterile gloves prior to 
any disinfection with sterile 70% IPA), the evaluator will col- 
lect a gloved fingertip and thumb sample from both hands 
of the compounding employee onto appropriate agar plates 
by lightly pressing each fingertip into the agar. The plates 
will be incubated for the appropriate incubation period and 
at the appropriate temperature (see Incubation Period). After 
completing the initial gowning and gloving competency 
evaluation, re-evaluation of all compounding personnel for 
this competency shall occur at least annually for personnel 
who compound low- and medium-risk level CSPs and semi- 
annually for personnel who compound high-risk level CSPs 
using one or more sample collections during any media-fill 
test procedure before they are allowed to continue com- 
pounding CSPs for human use. 

Immediately prior to sampling, gloves shall not be disin- 
fected with sterile 70% IPA. Disinfecting gloves immediately 
before sampling will provide false negative results. Plates 
filled with nutrient agar with neutralizing agents such as lec- 
ithin and polysorbate 80 added shall be used when sam- 
pling personnel fingertips. Personnel shall "touch" the agar 
with the fingertips of both hands in separate plates in a 

manner to create a slight impression in the agar. The sam- 
pled gloves shall be immediately discarded and proper hand 
hygiene performed after sampling. The nutrient agar plates 
shall be incubated as stated below (see Incubation Period). 
Results should be reported separately as number of cfu per 
employee per hand (left hand, right hand). The cfu action 



1 8 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

level for gloved hands will be based on the total number of 
cfu on both gloves, not per hand. 

Incubation Period—At the end of the designated sam- 
pling period for compounding personnel competency as- 
sessment activities (surface or personnel), the agar plates are 
recovered and covers secured and they are inverted and in- 
cubated at a temperature and for a time period conducive 
to multiplication of microorganisms. TSA with lecithin and 
polysorbate 80 shall be incubated at 300 to 35° for 48 to 
72 hours. 

Aseptic Manipulation Competency Evaluation—After 
successful completion of an initial Hand Hygiene and Garb- 
ing Competency Evaluation, all compounding personnel 
shall have their aseptic technique and related practice com- 
petency evaluated initially during the Media-Fill Test Proce- 
dure and subsequent annual or semi-annual Media-Fill Test 
Procedures. Records of these evaluations will be maintained 
using a form such as the Sample Form for Assessing Aseptic 
Technique and Related Practices of Compounding Personnel 
(see Appendix IV) and maintained to provide a permanent 
record of and long-term assessment of personnel compe- 
tency. 

Media-Fill Test Procedure—The skill of personnel to asepti- 
cally prepare CSPs shall be evaluated using sterile fluid bac- 
terial culture media-fill verification, (i.e., sterile bacterial cul- 
ture medium transfer via a sterile syringe and needle). 
Media-fill testing is used to assess the quality of the aseptic 
skill of compounding personnel. Media-fill tests shall repre- 
sent the most challenging or stressful conditions actually en- 
countered by the personnel being evaluated when they pre- 
pare low- and medium-risk level CSPs and when sterilizing 
high-risk level CSPs. Media-fill challenge tests are also used 
to verify the capability of the compounding environment 
and processes to produce sterile preparations. 

A commercially available sterile fluid culture media, such 
as Soybean—Casein Digest Medium (see Sterility Tests (71 )), 
that is able to promote exponential colonization of bacteria 
that are most likely to be transmitted to CSPs from the 
compounding personnel and environment is commonly 
used. For high-risk level CSPs nonsterile commercially availa- 
ble Soybean—Casein Digest Medium may be used to make a 

3% solution. Normal processing steps, including filter sterili- 
zation, shall be mimicked. Media-filled vials shall be incu- 
bated at 20° to 25° or at 30° to 35° for a minimum of 14 
days. If two temperatures are used for incubation of media- 
filled samples, then these filled containers should be incu- 
bated for at least 7 days at each temperature (see Microbio- 
logical Evaluation of Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Envi- 
ronments (111 6)). Failure is indicated by visible turbidity in 
any one of the media-fill units on or before 14 days. Other 
methodologies recommended by a competent microbiolo- 
gist to enhance recovery time and sensitivity to detect mi- 
crobial contamination may be considered (see CSP Microbial 
Contamination Risk Levels for examples of media-fill 
procedures). 

SURFACE CLEANING AND DISINFECTION SAMPLING AND 
ASSESSMENT 

Surface sampling is an important component of the main- 
tenance of a suitable microbially controlled environment for 
compounding CSPs, especially since transfer of microbial 
contamination from improperly disinfected work surfaces via 
inadvertent touch contact by compounding personnel can 
be a potential source of contamination into CSPs. It is useful 
for evaluating facility and work surface cleaning and disin- 
fecting procedures and employee competency in work prac- 
tices such as disinfection of component/vial surface clean- 
ing. Surface sampling shall be performed in all ISO classified 
areas on a periodic basis. Sampling can be accomplished 
using contact plates or swabs, and it shall be done at the 
conclusion of compounding. Locations to be sampled shall 
be defined in a sample plan or on a form. The size of the 

plate to be used for each sampled location usually ranges 
from 24 to 30 . Contact plates are filled with general 
solid agar growth medium and neutralizing agents above 
the rim of the plate, and they are used for sampling regular 
or flat surfaces. Swabs may be used for sampling irregular 
surfaces, especially for equipment (see Microbiological Evalu- 
ation of Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environments 
(1116)). 

Cleaning and Disinfecting Competency Evaluation— 
Compounding personnel and other personnel responsible 
for cleaning shall be visually observed during the process of 
performing cleaning and disinfecting procedures, during ini- 
tial personnel training on cleaning procedures, during 
changes in cleaning staff, and at the completion of any me- 
dia-fill test procedure (see Cleaning and Disinfecting of Com- 
pounding Areas). 

The visual observation shall be documented using a form 
such as the Sample Form for Assessing Cleaning and Disinfec- 
tion Procedures (see Appendix t') and maintained to provide a 
permanent record and long-term assessment of personnel 
competency. 

Surface Collection Methods—To sample surfaces using 
a contact plate, gently touch the sample area with the agar 
surface and roll the plate across the surface to be sampled. 
The contact plate will leave a growth media residue behind; 
therefore, immediately after sampling with the contact 
plate, the sampled area shall be thoroughly wiped with a 
nonshedding wipe soaked in sterile 70% IPA. 

If an area is sampled via the swab method, collection of 
the sample is processed by using appropriate procedures 
that will result in the surface location equivalent to that of a 

contact plate. After swabbing the surface to be sampled, 
swabs are placed in an appropriate diluent; an aliquot is 
planted on or in the specified nutrient agar. Results should 
be reported as cfu per unit of surface area. 

Action Levels, Documentation, and Data 
Evaluation 

The value of viable microbial monitoring of gloved finger- 
tips and surfaces of components and the compounding en- 
vironment are realized when the data are used to identify 
and correct an unacceptable work practice. Sampling data 
shall be collected and reviewed on a routine basis as a 

means of evaluating the overall control of the compounding 
environment. If an activity consistently shows elevated levels 
of microbial growth, competent microbiology personnel 
shall be consulted. 

Any cfu count that exceeds its respective action level (see 
Table 4) should prompt a re-evaluation of the adequacy of 
personnel work practices, cleaning procedures, operational 
procedures, and air filtration efficiency within the aseptic 
compounding location. An investigation into the source of 
the contamination shall be conducted. Sources could in- 
clude HVAC systems, damaged HEPA filters, and changes in 
personnel garbing or working practices. The source of the 
problem shall be eliminated, the affected area cleaned, and 
resampling performed. 

When gloved fingertip sample results exceed action levels 
after proper incubation, a review of hand hygiene and garb- 
ing procedures as well as glove and surface disinfection pro- 
cedures and work practices shall be performed and docu- 
mented. Employee training may be required to correct the 
source of the problem. 

Counts of cfu are to be used as an approximate measure 
of the environmental microbial bioburden. Action levels are 
determined on the basis of cfu data gathered at each sam- 
pling location and trended over time. The numbers in Table 
4 should be used only as guidelines. Regardless of the num- 
ber of cfu identified in the compounding facility, further 
corrective actions will be dictated by the identification of 
microorganisms recovered (at least the genus level) by an 
appropriate credentialed laboratory of any microbial bi- 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 1 9 

oburden captured as a cfu using an impaction air sampler. 
Highly pathogenic microorganisms (e.g., Gram-negative 
rods, coagulase positive staphylococcus, molds and yeasts) 
can be potentially fatal to patients receiving CSPs and shall 
be immediately remedied, regardless of cfu count, with the 
assistance of a competent microbiologist, infection control 
professional, or industrial hygienist. 

Table 4. Recommended Action Levels for Microbial 
Contamlnatlon* 

Classification 
Fingertip 
Sample 

Surface Sample (Contact 
Plate) 

(cfu per 
ISOClass5 >3 >3 
ISO Class 7 N/A > 5 

ISO Class 8 or 
worse 

N/A >100 

* Pharmaceutical Inspection Co-operation Scheme (PIC/S) Guide to 
Good Manufacturing Practice for Medicinal Products Annexes PE 

009-6, 5 April 2007. 

SUGGESTED STANDARD OPERATING 
PROCEDURES (SOPs) 

The compounding facility shall have written, properly ap- 
proved SOPs designed to ensure the quality of the environ- 
ment in which a CSP is prepared. The following procedures 
are recommended: 

1. Access to the buffer area is restricted to qualified per- 
sonnel with specific responsibilities or assigned tasks 
in the compounding area. 

2. All cartoned supplies are decontaminated in the area 
by removing them from shipping cartons and wiping 
or spraying them with a nonresidue-generating disin- 
fecting agent while they are being transferred to a 
clean and properly disinfected cart or other convey- 
ance for introduction into the buffer area. Manufac- 
turers' directions or published data for minimum con- 
tact time will be followed. Individual pouched sterile 
supplies need not be wiped because the pouches can 
be removed as these sterile supplies are introduced 
into the buffer area. 

3. Supplies that are required frequently or otherwise 
needed close at hand but not necessarily needed for 
the scheduled operations of the shift are decontami- 
nated and stored on shelving in the ante-area. 

4. Carts used to bring supplies from the storeroom can- 
not be rolled beyond the demarcation line in the 
ante-area, and carts used in the buffer area cannot be 
rolled outward beyond the demarcation line unless 
cleaned and disinfected before returning. 

5. Generally, supplies required for the scheduled opera- 
tions of the shift are wiped down with an appropriate 
disinfecting agent and brought into the buffer area, 
preferably on one or more movable carts. Supplies 
that are required for back-up or general support of 
operations may be stored on the designated shelving 
in the buffer area, but excessive amounts of supplies 
are to be avoided. 

6. Nonessential objects that shed particles shall not be 
brought into the buffer area, including pencils, card- 
board cartons, paper towels, and cotton items (e.g., 
gauze pads). 

7. Essential paper-related products (e.g., paper syringe 
overwraps, work records contained in a protective 
sleeve) shall be wiped down with an appropriate dis- 
infecting agent prior to being brought into the buffer 
area. 

8. Traffic flow in and out of the buffer area shall be 
minimized. 

9. Personnel preparing to enter the buffer area shall re- 
move all personal outer garments, cosmetics (because 
they shed flakes and particles), and all hand, wrist, 
and other visible jewelry or piercings that can inter- 
fere with the effectiveness of PPE. 

10. Personnel entering the ante-area shall don attire as 
described in Personnel Cleansing and Garbing and Per- 
sonnel Training and Competency Evaluation of Garbing, 
Aseptic Work Practices and Cleaning/Disinfection 
Procedures. 

11. Personnel shall then thoroughly wash hands and fore- 
arms to the elbow with soap and water for at least 
30 seconds. An air dryer or disposable nonshedding 
towels are used to dry hands and forearms after 
washing. 

12. Personnel entering the buffer area shall perform anti- 
septic hand cleansing prior to donning sterile gloves 
using a waterless alcohol-based surgical hand scrub 
with persistent activity. 

1 3. Chewing gum, drinks, candy, or food items shall not 
be brought into the buffer area or ante-area. Materi- 
als exposed in patient care and treatment areas shall 
never be introduced into areas where components 
and ingredients for CSPs are present. 

14. At the beginning of each compounding activity ses- 
sion, and whenever liquids are spilled, the surfaces of 
the direct compounding environment are first cleaned 
with USP Purified Water to remove water-soluble resi- 
dues. Immediately thereafter, the same surfaces are 
disinfected with a nonresidue-generating agent using 
a nonlinting wipe. 

15. Primary engineering controls shall be operated con- 
tinuously during compounding activity. When the 
blower is turned off and before other personnel enter 
to perform compounding activities, only one person 
shall enter the buffer area for the purposes of turning 
on the blower (for at least 30 minutes) and disinfect- 
ing the work surfaces. 

16. Traffic in the area of the DCA is minimized and 
controlled. 

1 7. Supplies used in the DCA for the planned procedures 
are accumulated and then decontaminated by wiping 
or spraying the outer surface with sterile 70% IPA or 
removing the outer wrap at the edge of the DCA as 
the item is introduced into the aseptic work area. 

18. All supply items are arranged in the DCA so as to 
reduce clutter and provide maximum efficiency and 
order for the flow of work. 

19. After proper introduction into the DCA of supply 
items required for and limited to the assigned opera- 
tions, they are so arranged that a clear, uninterrupted 
path of HEPA-filtered air will bathe all critical sites at 
all times during the planned procedures. That is, no 
objects may be placed between the first air from 
HEPA filters and an exposed critical site. 

20. All procedures are performed in a manner designed 
to minimize the risk of touch contamination. Gloves 
are disinfected with adequate frequency with an ap- 
proved disinfectant such as sterile 70% IPA. 

21. All rubber stoppers of vials and bottles and the necks 
of ampuls are disinfected by wiping with sterile 70% 
IPA and waiting for at least 10 seconds before they 
are used to prepare CSPs. 

22. After the preparation of every CSP, the contents of 
the container are thoroughly mixed and then in- 
spected for the presence of particulate matter, evi- 
dence of incompatibility, or other defects. 

23. After procedures are completed, used syringes, bot- 
tles, vials, and other supplies are removed, but with a 
minimum of exit and re-entry into the DCA so as to 
minimize the risk of introducing contamination into 
the aseptic workspace. 



20 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

ELEMENTS OF QUALITY CONTROL 

A written description of specific training and performance 
evaluation program for individuals involved in the use of 
aseptic techniques for the preparation of sterile products 
shall be developed for each site. This program equips per- 
sonnel with the appropriate knowledge and trains them in 
the required skills necessary to perform the assigned tasks. 
Each person assigned to the aseptic area in the preparation 
of sterile products shall successfully complete specialized 
training in aseptic techniques and aseptic area practices 
prior to preparing CSPs (see Personnel Training and Evalua- 
tion in Aseptic Manipulation Skills and Personnel Training and 
Competency Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and 
Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures). 

Ingredients and Devices 

Compounding personnel ascertain that ingredients for 
CSPs are of the correct identity and appropriate quality us- 
ing the following information: vendor labels, labeling, certifi- 
cates of analysis, direct chemical analysis, and knowledge of 
compounding facility storage conditions. 

STERILE INGREDIENTS AND DEVICES 

Commercially available sterile drug products, sterile ready- 
to-use containers, and devices are examples of sterile com- 
ponents. A written procedure for unit-by-unit physical in- 
spection preparatory to use is followed to ensure that these 
components are sterile, free from defects, and otherwise 
suitable for their intended use. 

NONSTERILE INGREDIENTS AND DEVICES 

If any nonsterile components, including containers and in- 
gredients, are used to make a CSP, such CSPs must be high 
risk. Nonsterile active ingredients and added substances or 
excipients for CSPs should preferably be official USP or NF 
articles. When nonofficial ingredients are used, they shall be 
accompanied by certificates of analysis from their suppliers 
to aid compounding personnel in judging the identity, qual- 
ity, and purity in relation to the intended use in a particular 
CSP. Physical inspection of a package of ingredients is nec- 
essary in order to detect breaks in the container, looseness 
in the cap or closure, and deviation from the expected ap- 
pearance, aroma, and texture of the contents. 

Bulk or unformulated drug substances and added sub- 
stances or excipients shall be stored in tightly closed con- 
tainers under temperature, humidity, and lighting conditions 
that are either indicated in official monographs or approved 
by suppliers. The date of receipt by the compounding facil- 
ity shall be clearly and indelibly marked on each package of 
ingredient. After receipt by the compounding facility, pack- 
ages of ingredients that lack a supplier's expiration date 
cannot be used after 1 year unless either appropriate inspec- 
tion or testing indicates that the ingredient has retained its 
purity and quality for use in CSPs. 

Careful consideration and evaluation of nonsterile ingredi- 
ent sources is especially warranted when the CSP will be 
administered into the vascular system, central nervous sys- 
tem, or eyes. 

Upon receipt of each lot of the bulk drug substance or 
excipient used for CSPs, the individual compounding the 
preparation performs a visual inspection of the lot for evi- 
dence of deterioration, other types of unacceptable quality, 
and wrong identification. For bulk drug substances or excip- 
ients, visual inspection is performed on a routine basis as 
described in the written protocol. 

Equipment 

It is necessary that equipment, apparatus, and devices 
used to compound a CSP be consistently capable of operat- 
ing properly and within acceptable tolerance limits. Written 
procedures outlining required equipment calibration, annual 
maintenance, monitoring for proper function, and con- 
trolled procedures for use of the equipment and specified 
time frames for these activities are established and followed. 
Routine maintenance and frequencies shall be outlined in 
these SOPs. Results from the equipment calibration, annual 
maintenance reports, and routine maintenance are kept on 
file for the lifetime of the equipment. Personnel are pre- 
pared through an appropriate combination of specific train- 
ing and experience to operate or manipulate any piece of 
equipment, apparatus, or device they may use when prepar- 
ing CSPs. Training includes gaining the ability to determine 
whether any item of equipment is operating properly or is 
malfunctioning. 

VERIFICATION OF AUTOMATED 
COMPOUNDING DEVICES (ACDs) FOR 

PARENTERAL NUTRITION COMPOUNDING 

ACDs for the preparation of parenteral nutrition admix- 
tures are widely used by pharmacists in hospitals and other 
healthcare settings. They are designed to streamline the la- 
bor-intensive processes involved in the compounding of 
these multiple-component formulations by automatically de- 
livering the individual nutritional components in a predeter- 
mined sequence under computerized control. Parenteral nu- 
trition admixtures often contain 20 or more individual 
additives representing as many as 50 or more individual 
components (e.g., 15 to 20 crystalline amino acids, dextrose 
monohydrate, and lipids; 10 to 12 electrolyte salts; 5 to 7 
trace minerals; and 12 vitamins). Thus, ACDs can provide 
improved accuracy and precision of the compounding pro- 
cess over the traditional manual compounding methods. 

Accuracy 

The accuracy of an ACD can be determined in various 
ways to ensure that the correct quantities of nutrients, elec- 
trolytes, or other nutritional components are delivered to 
the final infusion container. Initially, the ACD is tested for its 
volume and weight accuracy. For volume accuracy, a suita- 
ble volume of Sterile Water for Injection, USP, which repre- 
sents a typical additive volume (e.g., 40 mL for small-vol- 
ume range of 1 to 100 mL, 300 mL for large-volume range 
of 100 to 1000 mL), is programmed into the ACD and de- 
livered to the appropriate volumetric container. The com- 
pounding personnel should then consult Volumetric Appara- 
tus (31) for appropriate parameters to assess the volumetric 
performance of the ACD. For gravimetric accuracy, the bal- 
ance used in conjunction with the ACD is tested using vari- 
ous weight sizes that represent the amounts typically used 
to deliver the various additives. Compounding personnel 
should consult Weights and Balances (41) for acceptable tol- 
erances of the weights used. In addition, the same volume 
of Sterile Water for Injection used to assess volumetric accu- 
racy is then weighed on the balance used in conjunction 
with the ACD. For example, if 40 mL of water was used in 
the volumetric assessment, its corresponding weight should 
be about 40 g (assuming the relative density of water is 
1 .0). In addition, during the use of the ACD, certain addi- 
tives, such as potassium chloride (corrected for density dif- 
ferences), can also be tested in the same manner as with an 
in-process test. 

Finally, additional tests of accuracy may be employed that 
determine the content of certain ingredients in the final vol- 
ume of the parenteral nutrition admixture. Generally, phar- 
macy departments do not have the capability to routinely 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 21 

perform chemical analyses such as analyses of dextrose or 
electrolyte concentrations. Consequently, hospital or institu- 
tional laboratories may be called upon to perform these 
quality assurance tests. However, the methods in such labo- 
ratories are often designed for biological, not pharmaceuti- 
cal, systems. Thus, their testing procedures shall be verified 
to meet the USP requirements stated in the individual mon- 
ograph for the component being tested. For example, 
under Dextrose Injection, the following is stated: It contains 
not less than 95.0% and not more than 105.0% of the la- 
beled amount of • 0. The hospital or institutional 
chemistry laboratories must validate their methods to apply 
to this range and correct for their typical measurement of 
anhydrous dextrose versus dextrose monohydrate. Similar 
ranges and issues exist, for example, for injections of cal- 
cium gluconate, magnesium sulfate, and potassium chloride. 
The critical point is the use of USP references and possible 
laboratory procedural differences. 

Precision 

The intermediate precision of the ACD can be determined 
on the basis of the day-to-day variations in performance of 
the accuracy measures. Thus, compounding personnel shall 
keep a daily record of the above-described accuracy assess- 
ments and review the results over time. This review shall 
occur at least at weekly intervals to avoid potentially clini- 
cally significant cumulative errors over time. This is espe- 
cially true for additives with a narrow therapeutic index, 
such as potassium chloride. 

FINISHED PREPARATION RELEASE CHECKS 
AND TESTS 

The following quality metrics shall be performed for all 
CSPs before they are dispensed or administered. 

Inspection of Solution Dosage Forms and 
Review of Compounding Procedures 

All CSPs that are intended to be solutions shall be visually 
examined for the presence of particulate matter and not 
administered or dispensed when such matter is observed. 
The prescription orders, written compounding procedure, 
preparation records, and expended materials used to make 
CSPs at all contamination risk levels are inspected for accu- 
racy of correct identities and amounts of ingredients, aseptic 
mixing and sterilization, packaging, labeling, and expected 
physical appearance before they are administered or 
dispensed. 

PHYSICAL INSPECTION 

Finished CSPs are individually inspected in accordance 
with written procedures after compounding. If not distrib- 
uted promptly, these CSPs are individually inspected just 
prior to leaving the storage area. Those CSPs that are not 
immediately distributed are stored in an appropriate loca- 
tion as described in the written procedures. Immediately af- 
ter compounding, and as a condition of release, each CSP 
unit, where possible, should be inspected against lighted 
white or black background or both for evidence of visible 
particulates or other foreign matter. Prerelease inspection 
also includes container—closure integrity and any other ap- 
parent visual defect. CSPs with observed defects should be 
immediately discarded or marked and segregated from ac- 
ceptable products in a manner that prevents their adminis- 
tration. When CSPs are not distributed promptly after prep- 
aration, a predistribution inspection is conducted to ensure 
that a CSP with defects, such as precipitation, cloudiness, 
and leakage, which may develop between the time of re- 
lease and the time of distribution, is not released. 

Compounding Accuracy Checks 

Written procedures for double-checking compounding ac- 
curacy shall be followed for every CSP during preparation 
and immediately prior to release. The double-check system 
should meet state regulations and include label accuracy 
and accuracy of the addition of all drug products or ingredi- 
ents used to prepare the finished product and their volumes 
or quantities. The used additive containers and, for those 
additives for which the entire container was not expended, 
the syringes used to measure the additive should be quaran- 
tined with the final products until the final product check is 
completed. Compounding personnel shall visually confirm 
that ingredients measured in syringes match the written or- 
der being compounded. Preferably, a person other than the 
compounder can verify that correct volumes of correct in- 
gredients were measured to make each CSP. For example, 
compounding personnel would pull the syringe plunger 
back to the volume measured. 

When practical, the accuracy of measurements is con- 
firmed by weighing a volume of the measured fluid, then 
calculating that volume by dividing the weight by the accu- 
rate value of the density, or specific gravity, of the measured 
fluid. Correct density or specific gravity values programmed 
in ACDs, which measure by weight using the quotient of 
the programmed volume divided by the density or specific 
gravity, shall be confirmed to be accurate before and after 
delivering volumes of the liquids assigned to each channel 
or port. These volume accuracy checks and the following 
additional safety and accuracy checks in this section shall be 
included in the SOP manual of the CSP facility. 

Sterility Testing 

All high-risk level CSPs that are prepared in groups of 
more than 25 identical individual single-dose packages (e.g., 
ampuls, bags, syringes, vials) or in multiple-dose vials 
(MDV5) for administration to multiple patients or that are 
exposed longer than 12 hours at 2° to 8° and longer than 
6 hours at warmer than 8° before they are sterilized shall 
meet the sterility test (see Sterility Tests (71)) before they are 
dispensed or administered. The Membrane Filtration method 
is the method of choice where feasible (e.g., components 
are compatible with the membrane). A method not de- 
scribed in the USP may be used if verification results demon- 
strate that the alternative is at least as effective and reliable 
as the USP Membrane Filtration method or the USP Direct 
Inoculation of the Culture Medium method where the Mem- 
brane Filtration method is not feasible. 

When high-risk level CSPs are dispensed before receiving 
the results of their sterility tests, there shall be a written 
procedure requiring daily observation of the incubating test 
specimens and immediate recall of the dispensed CSPs 
when there is any evidence of microbial growth in the test 
specimens. In addition, the patient and the physician of the 
patient to whom a potentially contaminated CSP was ad- 
ministered are notified of the potential risk. Positive sterility 
test results should prompt a rapid and systematic investiga- 
tion of aseptic technique, environmental control, and other 
sterility assurance controls to identify sources of contamina- 
tion and correct problems in the methods or processes. 

Bacterial Endotoxin (Pyrogen) Testing 

All high-risk level CSPs, except those for inhalation and 
ophthalmic administration, that are prepared in groups of 
more than 25 identical individual single-dose packages (e.g., 
ampuls, bags, syringes, vials) or in MDVs for administration 
to multiple patients or that are exposed longer than 
12 hours at 2° to 8° and longer than 6 hours at warmer 
than 8° before they are sterilized shall be tested to ensure 
that they do not contain excessive bacterial endotoxins (see 



22 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

Bacterial Endotoxins Test (85) and Pyrogen Test (151 )). In the 
absence of a bacterial endotoxins limit in the official mono- 
graph or other CSP formula source, the CSP shall not ex- 
ceed the amount of USP Endotoxin Units (per hour per kilo- 
gram of body weight or square meters of body surface area) 
specified in Bacterial Endotoxins Test (85) referenced above 
for the appropriate route of administration. 

Identity and Strength Verification of 
Ingredients 

Compounding facilities shall have at least the following 
written procedures for verifying the correct identity and 
quality of CSPs before they are dispensed and administered: 

1. That labels of CSPs bear correct names and amounts 
or concentrations of ingredients, the total volume, 
the BUD, the appropriate route(s) of administration, 
the storage conditions, and other information for safe 
use. 

2. That there are correct identities, purities, and 
amounts of ingredients by comparing the original 
written order with the written compounding record 
for the CSP. 

3. That correct fill volumes in CSPs and correct quanti- 
ties of filled units of the CSPs were obtained. When 
the strength of finished CSPs cannot be confirmed to 
be accurate, based on the above three inspections, 
the CSPs shall be assayed by methods that are spe- 
cific for the active ingredients. 

STORAGE AND BEYOND-USE DATING 

BUDs for compounded preparations are usually assigned 
on the basis of professional experience, which should in- 
clude careful interpretation of appropriate information 
sources for the same or similar formulations (see Stability 
Criteria and Beyond-Use Dating under Pharmaceutical Corn- 
pounding—Nonsterile Preparations (795)). BUDs for CSPs are 
rarely based on preparation-specific chemical assay results, 
which are used with the Arrhenius equation to determine 
expiration dates (see General Notices and Requirements) for 
manufactured products. The majority of CSPs are aqueous 
solutions in which hydrolysis of dissolved ingredients is the 
most common chemical degradation reaction. The extent of 
hydrolysis and other heat-catalyzed degradation reactions at 
any particular time point in the life of a CSP represents the 
thermodynamic sum of exposure temperatures and dura- 
tions. Such lifetime stability exposure is represented in the 
mean kinetic temperature calculation (see Pharmaceutical 
Calculations in Prescription Compounding (11 60)). Drug hy- 
drolysis rates increase exponentially with arithmetic temper- 
ature increase; thus, exposure of a beta-lactam antibiotic so- 
lution for 1 day at controlled room temperature (see General 
Notices and Requirements) will have an equivalent effect on 
the extent of hydrolysis of approximately 3 to 5 days in cold 
temperatures (see General Notices and Requirements). 

Personnel who prepare, dispense, and administer CSPs 
shall store them strictly in accordance with the conditions 
stated on the label of ingredient products and finished 
CSPs. When CSPs are known to have been exposed to tem- 
peratures warmer than the warmest labeled limit or to tem- 
peratures exceeding 40° (see General Notices and Require- 
ments) for more than 4 hours, such CSPs should be 
discarded unless direct assay data or appropriate documen- 
tation confirms their continued stability. 

Determining Beyond-Use Dates 

BUDs and expiration dates are not the same (see General 
Notices and Requirements). Expiration dates for the chemical 
and physical stability of manufactured sterile products are 
determined from results of rigorous analytical and perfor- 
mance testing, and they are specific for a particular formula- 

tion in its container and at stated exposure conditions of 
illumination and temperature. When CSPs deviate from con- 
ditions in the approved labeling of manufactured products 
contained in CSPs, compounding personnel may consult the 
manufacturer of particular products for advice on assigning 
BUDs based on chemical and physical stability parameters. 
BUDs for CSPs that are prepared strictly in accordance with 
manufacturers' product labeling shall be those specified in 
that labeling or from appropriate literature sources or direct 
testing. BUDs for CSPs that lack justification from either ap- 
propriate literature sources or by direct testing evidence 
shall be assigned as described in Stability Criteria and Be- 
yond- Use Dating under Pharmaceutical Compounding—Non- 
sterile Preparations (795). 

In addition, compounding personnel may refer to applica- 
ble publications to obtain relevant stability, compatibility, 
and degradation information regarding the drug or its con- 
geners. When assigning a beyond-use date, compounding 
personnel should consult and apply drug-specific and gen- 
eral stability documentation and literature where available, 
and they should consider the nature of the drug and its 
degradation mechanism, the container in which it is pack- 
aged, the expected storage conditions, and the intended 
duration of therapy (see Expiration Date and Beyond-Use 
Date under Labeling in the General Notices and Require- 
ments). Stability information must be carefully interpreted in 
relation to the actual compounded formulation and condi- 
tions for storage and use. Predictions based on other evi- 
dence, such as publications, charts, and tables, would result 
in theoretical BUDs. Theoretically predicted beyond-use dat- 
ing introduces varying degrees of assumptions and, hence, a 

likelihood of error or at least inaccuracy. The degree of error 
or inaccuracy would be dependent on the extent of differ- 
ences between the CSPs' characteristics (e.g., composition, 
concentration of ingredients, fill volume, container type and 
material) and the characteristics of the products from which 
stability data or information is to be extrapolated. The 
greater the doubt of the accuracy of theoretically predicted 
beyond-use dating, the greater the need to determine dat- 
ing periods experimentally. Theoretically predicted beyond- 
use dating periods should be carefully considered for CSPs 
prepared from nonsterile bulk active ingredients having 
therapeutic activity, especially where these CSPs are ex- 
pected to be compounded routinely. When CSPs will be 
distributed to and administered in residential locations other 
than healthcare facilities, the effect of potentially uncon- 
trolled and unmonitored temperature conditions shall be 
considered when assigning BUDs. It must be ascertained 
that CSPs will not be exposed to warm temperatures (see 
General Notices and Requirements) unless the compounding 
facility has evidence to justify stability of CSPs during such 
exposure. 

It should be recognized that the truly valid evidence of 
stability for predicting beyond-use dating can be obtained 
only through product-specific experimental studies. Semi- 
quantitative procedures such as thin-layer chromatography 
(TLC) may be acceptable for many CSPs. However, quantita- 
tive stability-indicating assays such as high-performance liq- 
uid chromatographic (HPLC) assays would be more appro- 
priate for certain CSPs. Examples include CSPs with a 

narrow therapeutic index, where close monitoring or dose 
titration is required to ensure therapeutic effectiveness and 
to avoid toxicity; where a theoretically established beyond- 
use dating period is supported by only marginal evidence; 
or where a significant margin of safety cannot be verified for 
the proposed beyond-use dating period. In short, because 
beyond-use dating periods established from product-specific 
data acquired from the appropriate instrumental analyses 
are clearly more reliable than those predicted theoretically, 
the former approach is strongly urged to support dating 
periods exceeding 30 days. 

To ensure consistent practices in determining and as- 
signing BUDs, the compounding facility should have written 
policies and procedures governing the determination of the 
BUDs for all compounded products. When attempting to 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 23 

predict a theoretical BUD, a compounded or an admixed 
preparation should be considered as a unique system that 
has physical and chemical properties and stability character- 
istics that differ from its components. For example, antioxi- 
dant, buffering, or antimicrobial properties of a sterile vial 
for injection (SVI) might be lost upon its dilution, with the 
potential of seriously compromising the chemical stability of 
the SVI's active ingredient or the physical or microbiological 
stability of the SVI formulation in general. Thus, the proper- 
ties stabilized in the SVI formulation usually cannot be ex- 
pected to be carried over to the compounded or admixed 
preparation. Preparation-specific, experimentally determined 
stability data evaluation protocols are preferable to pub- 
lished stability information. Compounding personnel should 
consult general information chapter Pharmaceutical Stability 
(1150) for the appropriate stability parameters to be consid- 
ered when initiating or evaluating a preparation-specific sta- 
bility study. 

Compounding personnel who assign BUDs to CSPs when 
lacking direct chemical assay results must critically interpret 
and evaluate the most appropriate available information 
sources to determine a conservative and safe BUD. The SOP 
manual of the compounding facility and each specific CSP 
formula record shall describe the general basis used to as- 
sign the BUD and storage conditions. 

When manufactured MDVs (see Multiple-Dose Container 
under Preservation, Packaging, Storage, and Labeling in the 
General Notices and Requirements) of sterile ingredients are 
used in CSPs, the stoppers of the MDVs are inspected for 
physical integrity and disinfected by wiping with a sterile 
70% IPA swab before each penetration with a sterile with- 
drawal device. When contaminants or abnormal properties 
are suspected or observed in MDVs, such MDVs shall be 
discarded. The BUD after initially entering or opening (e.g., 
needle puncturing) multiple-dose containers is 28 days (see 
Antimicrobial Effectiveness Testing (51)) unless otherwise spec- 
ified by the manufacturer. 

Proprietary Bag and Vial Systems 

The sterility storage and stability beyond-use times for at- 
tached and activated (where activated is defined as allowing 
contact of the previously separate diluent and drug con- 
tents) container pairs of drug products for intravascular ad- 
ministration (e.g., ADD-Vantage®, Mini Bag Plus®) shall be 
applied as indicated by the manufacturer. In other words, 
follow manufacturers' instructions for handling and storing 
ADD-Vantage®, Mini Bag Plus®, Add A Vial®, Add-Ease® 
products, and any others. 

Monitoring Controlled Storage Areas 

To ensure that product potency is retained through the 
manufacturer's labeled expiration date, compounding per- 
sonnel shall monitor the drug storage areas within the com- 
pounding facility. Controlled temperature areas in com- 
pounding facilities include controlled room temperature, 20° 
to 25° with mean kinetic temperature 25°; controlled cold 
temperature, 2° to 8° with mean kinetic temperature 8°; 
cold temperature, 2° to 8°; freezing temperature, —25° and 
—1 0° (see General Notices and Requirements) if needed to 
achieve freezing, and the media-specific temperature range 
for microbial culture media. A controlled temperature area 
shall be monitored at least once daily and the results docu- 
mented on a temperature log. Additionally, compounding 
personnel shall note the storage temperature when placing 
the product into or removing the product from the storage 
unit in order to monitor any temperature aberrations. Suita- 
ble temperature recording devices may include a calibrated 
continuous recording device or a National Institute of Stan- 
dards and Technology (NIST) calibrated thermometer that 
has adequate accuracy and sensitivity for the intended pur- 
pose, and it shall be properly calibrated at suitable intervals. 
If the compounding facility uses a continuous temperature 

recording device, compounding personnel shall verify at 
least once daily that the recording device itself is function- 
ing properly. 

The temperature-sensing mechanisms shall be suitably 
placed in the controlled temperature storage space to reflect 
accurately its true temperature. In addition, the compound- 
ing facility shall adhere to appropriate procedures of all con- 
trolled storage spaces to ensure that such spaces are not 
subject to significantly prolonged temperature fluctuations 
as may occur, for example, by leaving a refrigerator door 
open too long. 

MAINTAINING STERILITY, PURITY, AND 
STABILITY OF DISPENSED AND DISTRIBUTED 

CSPs 

This section summarizes the responsibilities of compound- 
ing facilities for maintaining quality and control of CSPs that 
are dispensed and administered within their parent health- 
care organizations. 

Compounding personnel shall ensure proper storage and 
security of CSPs prepared by or dispensed from the com- 
pounding facility until either their BUDs are reached or they 
are administered to patients. In fulfilling this general respon- 
sibility, the compounding facility is responsible for the 
proper packaging, handling, transport, and storage of CSPs 
prepared by or dispensed from it, including the appropriate 
education, training, and supervision of compounding per- 
sonnel assigned to these functions. The compounding facil- 
ity should assist in the education and training of noncom- 
pounding personnel responsible for carrying out any aspect 
of these functions. 

Establishing, maintaining, and ensuring compliance with 
comprehensive written policies and procedures encompass- 
ing these responsibilities is a further responsibility of the 
compounding facility. Where noncompounding personnel 
are assigned tasks involving any of these responsibilities, the 
policies and procedures encompassing those tasks should be 
developed by compounding supervisors. The quality and 
control activities related to distribution of CSPs are summa- 
rized in the following five subsections. Activities or concerns 
that should be addressed as the compounding facility fulfills 
these responsibilities are as follows. 

Packaging, Handling, and Transport 

Inappropriate processes or techniques involved with pack- 
aging, handling, and transport can adversely affect quality 
and package integrity of CSPs. Although compounding per- 
sonnel routinely perform many of the tasks associated with 
these functions, some tasks, such as transport, handling, 
and placement into storage, may be fulfilled by noncom- 
pounding personnel who are not under the direct adminis- 
trative control of the compounding facility. Under these cir- 
cumstances, appropriate SOPs shall be established by the 
compounding facility with the involvement of other depart- 
ments or services whose personnel are responsible for carry- 
ing out those CSP-related functions for which the com- 
pounding facility has a direct interest. The performance of 
the noncompounding personnel is monitored for compli- 
ance to established policies and procedures. 

The critical requirements that are unique to CSPs and that 
are necessary to ensure CSP quality and packaging integrity 
shall be addressed in SOPs. For example, techniques should 
be specified to prevent the depression of syringe plungers 
or dislodging of syringe tips during handling and transport. 
Additionally, disconnection of system components (e.g., 
where CSPs are dispensed with administration sets attached 
to them) shall be prevented through the BUD of the CSP. 
Foam padding or inserts are particularly useful where CSPs 
are transported by pneumatic tube systems. Regardless of 
the methods used, the compounding facility must evaluate 
their effectiveness and the reliability of the intended protec- 



24 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

tion. Evaluation should be continuous—for example, 
through a surveillance system, including a system of prob- 
lem reporting to the compounding facility. 

Inappropriate transport and handling can adversely affect 
the quality of certain CSPs having unique stability concerns. 
For example, the physical shaking that might occur during 
pneumatic tube transport or undue exposure to heat or 
light must be addressed on a preparation-specific basis. Al- 
ternative transport modes or special packaging measures 
might be needed for the proper assurance of quality of 
these CSPs. The use of tamper-evident closures and seals on 
CSP ports can add an additional measure of security to en- 
sure product integrity regardless of the transport method 
used. 

Chemotoxic and other hazardous CSPs require safeguards 
to maintain the integrity of the CSP and to minimize the 
exposure potential of these products to the environment 
and to personnel who may come in contact with them. 
Transportation by pneumatic tube should be discouraged 
because of potential breakage and contamination. Special 
requirements associated with the packaging, transport, and 
handling of these agents include the prevention of acciden- 
tal exposures or spills and the training of personnel in the 
event of an exposure or spill. Examples of special require- 
ments of these agents also include exposure-reducing strate- 
gies such as the use of Luer lock syringes and connections, 
syringe caps, the capping of container ports, sealed plastic 
bags, impact-resistant containers, and cautionary labeling. 

Use and Storage 

The compounding facility is responsible for ensuring that 
CSPs in the patient-care setting maintain their quality until 
administered. The immediate labeling of the CSP container 
will display prominently and understandably the require- 
ments for proper storage and expiration dating. Delivery 
and patient-care-setting personnel shall be properly trained 
to deliver the CSP to the appropriate storage location. Out- 
dated and unused CSPs shall be returned to the compound- 
ing facility for disposition. 

SOPs must exist to ensure that storage conditions in the 
patient-care setting are suitable for the CSP-specific storage 
requirements. Procedures include daily monitoring and doc- 
umentation of drug storage refrigerators to ensure tempera- 
tures between 2° and 8° and the monthly inspection of all 
drug storage locations by compounding personnel. Inspec- 
tions shall confirm compliance with appropriate storage 
conditions, separation of drugs and food, proper use of 
MDVs, and the avoidance of using single-dose products as 
MDVs. CSPs, as well as all other drug products, shall be 
stored in the patient-care area in such a way as to secure 
them from unauthorized personnel, visitors, and patients. 

Readying for Administration 

Procedures essential for generally ensuring quality, espe- 
cially sterility assurance, when readying a CSP for its subse- 
quent administration include proper hand washing, aseptic 
technique, site care, and change of administration sets. Ad- 
ditional procedures may also be essential for certain CSPs, 
devices, or techniques. Examples where such special proce- 
dures are needed include in-line filtration, the operation of 
automated infusion control devices, and the replenishment 
of CSPs into the reservoirs of implantable or portable infu- 
sion pumps. When CSPs are likely to be exposed to warmer 
than 30° for more than 1 hour during their administration 
to patients, the maintenance of their sterility and stability 
should be confirmed from either relevant and reliable 
sources or direct testing. 

Redispensed CSPs 

The compounding facility shall have the sole authority to 
determine when unopened, returned CSPs may be redis- 
pensed. Returned CSPs may be redispensed only when per- 
sonnel responsible for sterile compounding can ensure that 
such CSPs are sterile, pure, and stable (contain labeled 
strength of ingredients). The following may provide such 
assurance: the CSPs were maintained under continuous re- 
frigeration and protected from light, if required, and no evi- 
dence of tampering or any readying for use outside the 
compounding facility exists. Assignment of new storage 
times and BUDs that exceed the original dates for returned 
CSPs is permitted only when there is supporting evidence 
from sterility testing and quantitative assay of ingredients. 
Thus, initial preparation and thaw times should be docu- 
mented and reliable measures should have been taken to 
prevent and detect tampering. Compliance with all proce- 
dures associated with maintaining product quality is essen- 
tial. The CSPs shall not be redispensed if there is not ade- 
quate assurance that preparation quality and packaging 
integrity (including the connections of devices, where appli- 
cable) were continuously maintained between the time the 
CSPs left and the time they were returned. Additionally, 
CSPs shall not be redispensed if redispensing cannot be sup- 
ported by the originally assigned BUD. 

Education and Training 

The assurance of CSPs' quality and packaging integrity is 
highly dependent on the proper adherence of all personnel 
to the pertinent SOPs. Compounding personnel shall de- 
sign, implement, and maintain a formal education, training, 
and competency assessment program that encompasses all 
the functions and tasks addressed in the foregoing sections 
and all personnel to whom such functions and tasks are 
assigned. This program includes the assessment and docu- 
mentation of procedural breaches, administration mishaps, 
side effects, allergic reactions, and complications associated 
with dosage or administration, such as extravasation. This 
program should be coordinated with the institution's ad- 
verse-events and incident reporting programs. 

Packing and Transporting CSPs 

The following sections describe how to maintain sterility 
and stability of CSPs until they are delivered to patient care 
locations for administration. 

PACKING CSPS FOR TRANSIT 

When CSPs are distributed to locations outside the prem- 
ises in which they are compounded, compounding person- 
nel select packing containers and materials that are ex- 
pected to maintain physical integrity, sterility, and stability 
of CSPs during transit. Packing is selected that simultane- 
ously protects CSPs from damage, leakage, contamination, 
and degradation, and protects personnel who transport 
packed CSPs from harm. The SOP manual of the com- 
pounding facility specifically describes appropriate packing 
containers and insulating and stuffing materials, based on 
information from product specifications, vendors, and expe- 
rience of compounding personnel. Written instructions that 
clearly explain how to safely open containers of packed 
CSPs are provided to patients and other recipients. 





26 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

QUALITY ASSURANCE (QA) PROGRAM 

A provider of CSPs shall have in place a formal QA pro- 
gram intended to provide a mechanism for monitoring, 
evaluating, correcting, and improving the activities and 
processes described in this chapter. Emphasis in the QA pro- 
gram is placed on maintaining and improving the quality of 
systems and the provision of patient care. In addition, the 
QA program ensures that any plan aimed at correcting iden- 
tified problems also includes appropriate follow-up to make 
certain that effective corrective actions were 13 

Characteristics of a QA program include the following: 
1. Formalization in writing; 
2. Consideration of all aspects of the preparations and 

dispensing of products as described in this chapter, 
including environmental testing and verification 
results; 

3. Description of specific monitoring and evaluation 
activities; 

4. Specification of how results are to be reported and 
evaluated; 

5. Identification of appropriate follow-up mechanisms 
when action limits or thresholds are exceeded; and 

6. Delineation of the individuals responsible for each as- 
pect of the QA program. 

In developing a specific plan, focus is on establishing ob- 
jective, measurable indicators for monitoring activities and 
processes that are deemed high risk, high volume, or prob- 
lem prone. In general, the selection of indicators and the 
effectiveness of the overall QA program is reassessed on an 
annual basis. 

ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS 

ACD automated compounding device 

ACPH air changes per hour 
ALARA as low as reasonably achievable 

'3 The use of additional resources, such as the Accreditation Manual for Home 
Care from the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organiza- 
tions, may prove helpful in the development of a QA plan. 

PPE 

psi 

American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Con- 
ditioning Engineers 

biological indicator 
biological safety cabinet 
beyond-use date 

compounding aseptic containment isolator 

compounding aseptic isolator 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

Controlled Environment Testing Association 

colony-forming unit(s) 

compounded sterile preparation 
closed-system vial-transfer device 

direct compounding area 

endotoxin challenge vial 

Endotoxin Unit 
Food and Drug Administration 
high efficiency particulate air 

Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advisory Com- 
mittee 

heating, ventilation, and air conditioning 
isopropyl alcohol 

International Organization for Standardization 
laminar airflow workbench 
multiple-dose vials 

Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report 

National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health 

National Institute of Standards and Technology 
primary engineering control 
positron emission tomography 
personnel protective equipment 
pounds per square inch 

quality assurance 

standard operating procedure 
sterile vial for injection 
trypticase soy agar 

United States Pharmacopeia 

ASH RAE 

BI 

BSC 

BUD 

CACI 

CAl 

CDC 

CETA 

cfu 

CSP 

CSTD 

DCA 

ECV 

EU 

FDA 

HEPA 

HICPAC 

HVAC 

IPA 

ISO 

LAFW 

MDVs 

MMWR 

NIOSH 

NIST 

QA 

SOP 

SVI 

ISA 
USP 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 27 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in USP Chapter (797) 

NOTE—This tabular appendix selectively abstracts and condenses the full text of (797) for rapid reference only. Compounding personnel are responsible 
for reading, understanding and complying with the full text and all official USP terminology, content, and conditions therein. 

INTRODUCTION 

j Chapter purpose is to prevent harm and death to patients treated with CSPs. 

t Chapter pertains to preparation, storage, and transportation, but not administration, of CSPs. 

t Personnel and facilities to which (797) applies; therefore, for whom and which it may be enforced by regulatory and accreditation authorities. 

t Types of preparations designated to be CSP5 according to their physical forms, and their sites and routes of administration to patients. 

1- Compounding personnel must be meticulously conscientious to preclude contact contamination of CSPs both within and outside ISO Class 5 areas. 

ORGANIZATION 

t All compounding personnel shall be responsible for understanding fundamental practices and precautions within USP (797), for developing and 
implementing appropriate procedures, and for continually evaluating these procedures and the quality of final CSP5 to prevent harm. 

DEFINITIONS 

1- Twenty-eight terms are defined and integral to complying with USP (797). 

RESPONSIBILITY OF COMPOUNDING PERSONNEL 

t Practices and quality assurances required to prepare, store, and transport CSPs that are sterile, and acceptably accurate, pure, and stable. 

CSP MICROBIAL CONTAMINATION RISK LEVELS 

t Proper training and evaluation of personnel, proper cleansing and garbing of personnel, proper cleaning and disinfecting of compounding work 
environments, and proper maintenance and monitoring of controlled environmental locations (all of which are detailed in their respective sections). 

Low-Risk Level CSPs 

t Aseptic manipulations within an ISO Class 5 environment using three or fewer sterile products and entries into any container. 

tIn absence of passing sterility test, store not more than 48 hours at controlled room temperature, 14 days at cold temperature, and 45 days in solid 
frozen state at —25° to —10° or colder. 

t Media-fill test at least annually by compounding personnel. 

Low-Risk Level CSPs with 12-Hour or Less BUD 

t Fully comply with all four specific criteria. 

1 
Sinks should not be located adjacent to the ISO Class 5 primary engineering control. 

1 
Sinks should be separated from the immediate area of the ISO Class 5 primary engineering control device. 

Medium-Risk Level CSPs 

t Aseptic manipulations within an ISO Class 5 environment using prolonged and complex mixing and transfer, more than three sterile products and 
entries into any container, and pooling ingredients from multiple sterile products to prepare multiple CSP5. 

tIn absence of passing sterility test, store not more than 30 hours at controlled room temperature, 9 days at cold temperature, and 45 days in solid 
frozen state at —25° to —10° or colder. 

tMedia-fiIl test at least annually by compounding personnel. 

High-Risk Level CSP5 

t Confirmed presence of nonsterile ingredients and devices, or confirmed or suspected exposure of sterile ingredients for more than one hour to air 
quality inferior to ISO Class 5 before final sterilization. 

t Sterilization method verified to achieve sterility for the quantity and type of containers. 

t Meet allowable limits for bacterial endotoxins. 

t Maintain acceptable strength and purity of ingredients and integrity of containers after sterilization. 

tIn absence of passing sterility test, store not more than 24 hours at controlled room temperature, 3 days at cold temperature, and 45 days in solid 
frozen state at —25° to —10° or colder. 

t Media-fill test at least semiannually by compounding personnel. 

PERSONNEL TRAINING AND EVALUATION IN ASEPTIC MANIPULATIONS SKILLS 

t Pass didactic, practical skill assessment and media-fill testing initially, followed by an annual assessment for a low- and medium-risk level compound- 
ing and semi-annual assessment for high-risk level compounding. 

t Compounding personnel who fail written tests, or whose media-fill test vials result in gross microbial colonization, shall be immediately reinstructed 
and re-evaluated by expert compounding personnel to ensure correction of all aseptic practice deficiencies. 

IMMEDIATE-USE CSP5 

t Fully comply with all six specified criteria. 



28 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (Continued) 

SINGLE-DOSE AND MULTIPLE-DOSE CONTAINERS 

1- Beyond-use date 28 days, unless specified otherwise by the manufacturer, for closure sealed multiple-dose containers after initial opening or entry. 

t Beyond-use time of 6 hours, unless specified otherwise by the manufacturer, for closure sealed single-dose containers in ISO Class 5 or cleaner air 
after initial opening or entry. 

1- Beyond-use time of 1 hour for closure sealed single-dose containers after being opened or entered in worse than ISO Class 5 air. 

t Storage of opened single-dose ampuls is not permitted. 

HAZARDOUS DRUGS AS CSPs 

1- Appropriate personnel protective equipment. 

t Appropriate primary engineering controls (BSC5 and CACI5) are used for concurrent personnel protection and exposure of critical sites. 

t Hazardous drugs shall be stored separately from other inventory in a manner to prevent contamination and personnel exposure. 

tAt least 0.01 inch water column negative pressure and 12 air changes per hour in non-cleanrooms in which CACI5 are located. 

1- Hazardous drugs shall be handled with caution at all times using appropriate chemotherapy gloves during receiving, distribution, stocking, invento- 
rying, preparing for administration, and disposal. 

1- Hazardous drugs shall be prepared in an ISO Class 5 environment with protective engineering controls in place, and following aseptic practices 
specified for the appropriate contamination risk levels. 

t Access to drug preparation areas shall be limited to authorized personnel. 

t A pressure indicator shall be installed that can readily monitor room pressurization, which is documented daily. 

1- Annual documentation of full training of personnel regarding storage, handling, and disposal of hazardous drugs. 

t When used, a CSTD shall be used in an ISO Class 5 primary engineering control device. 

t At least 0.01 inch water column negative pressure is required for compounding of hazardous drugs. 

Negative-pressure buffer area is not required for low-volume compounding operations when CSTD is used in BSC or CACI. 

t Compounding personnel of reproductive capability shall confirm in writing that they understand the risks of handling hazardous drugs. 

t Disposal of all hazardous drug wastes shall comply with all applicable federal and state regulations. 

1 
Total external exhaust of primary engineering controls. 

Assay of surface wipe samples every 6 months. 

RADIOPHARMACEUTICALS AS CSPs 

t Positron Emission Tomography is according to USP chapter 

t Appropriate primary engineering controls and radioactivity containment and shielding. 

t Radiopharmaceuticals compounded from sterile components, in closed sterile containers, with volume of 100 mL or less for a single-dose injection or 
not more than 30 mL taken from a multiple-dose container shall be designated as and conform to the standards for low-risk level CSP5. 

t Radiopharmaceutical vials, designed for multi-use, compounded with technetium-99m, exposed to ISO Class 5 environment and punctured by 
needles with no direct contact contamination may be used up to the time indicated by manufacturers' recommendations. 

t Location of primary engineering controls permitted in ISO Class 8 controlled environment. 

t Technetium-99m/Molybdenum-99 generators used according to manufacturer, state, and federal requirements. 

t Radiopharmaceuticals prepared as low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or less BUD shall be prepared in a segregated compounding area. 

t Materials and garb exposed in patient-care and treatment area shall not cross a line of demarcation into the segregated compounding area. 

t Technetium-99m/Molybdenum-99 generators must be eluted in ISO Class 8 conditions. 

t Segregated compounding area will be designated with a line of demarcation. 

1 
Storage and transport of properly shielded vials of radiopharmaceutical CSPs may occur in a limited access ambient environment without a specific 

ISO class designation. 

ALLERGEN EXTRACTS AS CSPs 

t Allergen extracts as CSP5 are not subject to the personnel, environmental, and storage requirements for all CSP Microbial Contamination Risk Levels 
when certain criteria are met. 

VERIFICATION OF COMPOUNDING ACCURACY AND STERILITY 

t Review labels and document correct measurements, aseptic manipulations, and sterilization procedures to confirm correct identity, purity, and 
strength of ingredients in, and sterility of, CSPs. 

Assay finished CSPs to confirm correct identity and, or, strength of ingredients. 

1 Sterility test finished CSP5. 

Sterilization Methods 

t Verify that methods achieve sterility while maintaining appropriate strength, purity, quality, and packaging integrity. 
Prove effectiveness by USP chapter (71), equivalent, or superior sterility testing. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 29 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (Continued) 

Sterilization of High-Risk Level CSPs by Filtration 

t Nominal 0.2-lim pore size sterile membranes that are chemically and physically compatible with the CSP. 

t Complete rapidly without filter replacement. 

t Subject filter to manufacturer's recommended integrity test (e.g., bubble point test) after filtering CSP5. 

Sterilization of High-Risk Level CSPs by Steam 

1- Test to verify the mass of containers to be sterilized will be sterile after the selected exposure duration in the particular autoclave. 

t Ensure live steam contacts all ingredients and surfaces to be sterilized. 

t Pass solutions through a 1 .2-FLm or smaller nominal pore size filter into final containers to remove particulates before sterilization. 

t Heated filtered air shall be evenly distributed throughout the chamber by a blower device. 

1- Dry heat shall only be used for those materials that cannot be sterilized by steam, when the moisture would either damage or be impermeable to 
the materials. 

t Sufficient space shall be left between materials to allow for good circulation of the hot air. 

1- The description of dry heat sterilization conditions and duration for specific CSPs shall be included in written documentation in the compounding 
facility. The effectiveness of dry heat sterilization shall be verified using appropriate biological indicators and other confirmation. 
The oven should be equipped with a system for controlling temperature and exposure period. 

Depyrogenation by Dry Heat 

t Dry heat depyrogenation shall be used to render glassware or containers, such as vials free from pyrogens as well as viable microbes. 

t The description of the dry heat depyrogenation cycle and duration for specific load items shall be included in written documentation in the 
compounding facility. 

t The effectiveness of the dry heat depyrogenation cycle shall be verified using endotoxin challenge vials (ECVs). 

1 
The bacterial endotoxin test should be performed on the ECV5 to verify the cycle is capable of achieving a 3 log reduction in endotoxin. 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY AND CONTROL 

Exposure of Critical Sites 

t ISO Class 5 or better air. 

t Preclude direct contact (e.g., touch and secretions) contamination. 
ISO Class 5 Air Sources, Buffer Areas, and Ante-Areas 

t A buffer area is an area that provides at least ISO Class 7 air quality. 

t New representations of facility layouts. 

t Each compounding facility shall ensure that each source of ISO Class 5 environment for exposure of critical sites and sterilization by filtration is 

properly located, operated, maintained, monitored, and verified. 

t Devices (e.g., computers and printers) and objects (e.g., carts and cabinets) can be placed in buffer areas and shall be verified by testing or 
monitoring. 

Viable and Nonviable Environmental Sampling (ES) Testing 

t Environmental sampling shall occur as part a comprehensive quality management program and shall occur minimally when several conditions exist. 

The ES program should provide information to staff and leadership to demonstrate that the engineering controls are maintaining an environment 
within the compounding area that consistently maintains acceptably low viable and nonviable particle levels. 

Environmental Nonviable Particle Testing Program 

t Certification and testing of primary (LAFWs, BSC5, CAI5 and CACI5) and secondary engineering controls (buffer and ante areas) shall be performed 
by a qualified individual no less than every six months and whenever the device or room is relocated, altered, or major service to the facility is 

performed. Certification procedures such as those outlined in the CETA Certification Guide for Sterile Compounding Facilities (CAG-003-2006) shall 
be used. 

Total Particle Counts 

t Certification that each ISO classified area (e.g., ISO Class 5, 7 and 8) is within established guidelines shall be performed no less than every 6 months 
and whenever the LAFW, BSC, CAl, or CACI is relocated or the physical structure of the buffer room or ante-area has been altered. 

t Testing shall be performed by qualified operators using current, state-of-the-art electronic equipment with results meeting ISO Class 5, 7, or 8 

depending on the requirements of the area. 

f All certification records shall be maintained and reviewed by supervising personnel or other designated employee to ensure that the controlled 
environments comply with the proper air cleanliness, room pressures, and air changes per hour. 

Pressure Differential Monitoring 
f A pressure gauge or velocity meter shall be installed to monitor the pressure differential or airflow between the buffer area and ante-area, and the 

ante-area and the general environment outside the compounding area. 

t The results shall be reviewed and documented on a log at least every work shift (minimum frequency shall be at least daily) or by a continuous 
recording device. 

t The pressure between the ISO Class 7 and general pharmacy area shall not be less than 5 Pa (0.02 inch water column (w.c.)). 

tIn facilities where low- and medium-risk level CSPs are prepared, differential airflow shall maintain a minimum velocity of 0.2 meter/second (40 fpm) 
between buffer area and ante-area. 

Environmental Viable Airborne Particle Testing Program—Sampling Plan 

t An appropriate environmental sampling plan shall be developed for airborne viable particles based on a risk assessment of compounding activities 
performed. 

t Selected sampling sites shall include locations within each ISO Class 5 environment and in the ISO Class 7 and 8 areas, and the segregated 
compounding areas at greatest risk of contamination (e.g., work areas near the ISO Class 5 environment, counters near doors, pass-through boxes). 



30 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (797) (continued) 

t The plan shall include sample location, method of collection, frequency of sampling, volume of air sampled, and time of day as related to activity in 
the compounding area and action levels. 

It is recommended that compounding personnel refer to USP Chapter Microbiological Evaluation of clean Rooms and Other controlled Environments 
(1116) and the CDC Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control in Healthcare Facilities-2003 for more information. 

Growth Media 

t A general microbiological growth medium such as Soybean—Casein Digest Medium (also known as trypticase soy broth (TSB) or agar (TSA)) shall be 
used to support the growth of bacteria. 

t Malt extract agar (MEA) or some other media that supports the growth of fungi shall be used in high-risk level compounding environments. 

t Media used for surface sampling shall be supplemented with additives to neutralize the effects of disinfecting agents (e.g., TSA with lecithin and 
polysorbate 80). 

Viable Air Sampling 

t Evaluation of airborne microorganisms using volumetric collection methods in the controlled air environments shall be performed by properly 
trained individuals for all compounding risk levels. 

t Impaction shall be the preferred method of volumetric air sampling. 

t For low-, medium-, and high-risk level compounding, air sampling shall be performed at locations that are prone to contamination during 
compounding activities and during other activities like staging, labeling, gowning, and cleaning. 

t Locations shall include zones of air backwash turbulence within laminar airflow workbench and other areas where air backwash turbulence may 
enter the compounding area. 

t For low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or less BUD, air sampling shall be performed at locations inside the ISO Class 5 environment and other areas 
that are in close proximity to the ISO class 5 environment, during the certification of the primary engineering control. 
Consideration should be given to the overall effect the chosen sampling method will have on the unidirectional airflow within a compounding 

environment. 
Air Sampling Devices 

t The instructions in the manufacturer's user manual for verification and use of electric air samplers that actively collect volumes of air for evaluation 
shall be followed. 

t A sufficient volume of air (400—1000 liters) shall be tested at each location in order to maximize sensitivity. 
It is recommended that compounding personnel also refer to USP Chapter (1116), which can provide more information on the use of volumetric air 

samplers and volume of air that should be sampled to detect environmental bioburden excursions. 

Air Sampling Frequency and Process 

t Air sampling shall be performed at least semiannually (i.e. every 6 months), as part of the re-certification of facilities and equipment for area where 
primary engineering controls are located. 

t A sufficient volume of air shall be sampled and the manufacturer's guidelines for use of the electronic air sampling equipment followed. 
Any facility construction or equipment servicing may require the need to perform air sampling during these events. 

Incubation Period 

t The microbial growth media plates used to collect environmental sampling are recovered, covers secured (e.g., taped), inverted, and incubated at a 

temperature and for a time period conducive to multiplication of microorganisms. 

t The number of discrete colonies of microorganisms shall be counted and reported as colony-forming units (cfu) and documented on an environ- 
mental monitoring form. Counts from air monitoring need to be transformed into cfu/cubic meter of air and evaluated for adverse trends. 

TSA should be incubated at 35° ± 2 ° for 2—3 days. 

MEA or other suitable fungal media should be incubated at 28° ± 2 ° for 5—7 days. 

Action Levels, Documentation and Data Evaluation 

t Sampling data shall be collected and reviewed on a periodic basis as a means of evaluating the overall control of the compounding environment. 

t Competent microbiology personnel shall be consulted if an environmental sampling consistently shows elevated levels of microbial growth. 

t An investigation into the source of the environmental contamination shall be conducted. 
Any cfu count that exceeds its respective action level should prompt a re-evaluation of the adequacy of personnel work practices, cleaning 

procedures, operational procedures, and air filtration efficiency within the aseptic compounding location. 

1 
Table titled, Recommended Action Levels for Microbial Contamination should only be used as a guideline 

Facility Design and Environmental Controls 

t Compounding facilities are physically designed and environmentally controlled to minimize airborne contamination from contacting critical sites. 

t Compounding facilities shall provide a comfortable and well-lighted working environment, which typically includes a temperature of 20° or cooler to 
maintain comfortable conditions for compounding personnel when attired in the required aseptic compounding garb. 

t Primary engineering controls provide unidirectional (i.e., laminar) HEPA air at a velocity sufficient to prevent airborne particles from contacting 
critical sites. 

fIn situ air pattern analysis via smoke studies shall be conducted at the critical area to demonstrate unidirectional airflow and sweeping action over 
and away from the product under dynamic conditions. 

f Policies and procedures for maintaining and working within the primary engineering control area shall be written and followed. The policies and 
procedures will be determined by the scope and risk levels of the aseptic compounding activities used during the preparation of the CSP5. 

f The principles of HEPA-filtered unidirectional airflow in the work environment shall be understood and practiced in the compounding process in 
order to achieve the desired environmental conditions. 

f Clean rooms for nonhazardous and nonradioactive CSP5 are supplied with HEPA that enters from ceilings with return vents low on walls, and that 
provides not less than 30 air changes per hour. 

f Buffer areas maintain 0.02- to 0.05-inch water column positive pressure, and do not contain sinks or drains. 

f Air velocity from buffer rooms or zones to ante-areas is at least 40 feet/minute. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 31 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (continued) 

t The primary engineering controls shall be placed within a buffer area in such a manner as to avoid conditions that could adversely affect their 
operation. 

t The primary engineering controls shall be placed out of the traffic flow and in a manner to avoid disruption from the HVAC system and room cross- 
drafts. 

t HEPA-filtered supply air shall be introduced at the ceiling. 

t All HEPA filters shall be efficiency tested using the most penetrating particle size and shall be leak tested at the factory and then leak tested again in 

situ after installation. 

t Activities and tasks carried out within the buffer area shall be limited to only those necessary when working within a controlled environment. 

t Only the furniture, equipment, supplies, and other material required for the compounding activities to be performed shall be brought into the 
room. 

t Surfaces and essential furniture in buffer rooms or zones and clean rooms shall be nonporous, smooth, nonshedding, impermeable, cleanable, and 
resistant to disinfectants. 

1- The surfaces of ceilings, walls, floors, fixtures, shelving, counters, and cabinets in the buffer area shall be smooth, impervious, free from cracks and 
crevices, and nonshedding, thereby promoting cleanability, and minimizing spaces in which microorganisms and other contaminants may accumu- 
late. 

t The surfaces shall be resistant to damage by disinfectant agents. 

t Junctures of ceilings to walls shall be coved or caulked to avoid cracks and crevices where dirt can accumulate. 

t Ceiling tiles shall be caulked around each perimeter to seal them to the support frame. 

1- The exterior lens surface of ceiling lighting fixtures shall be smooth, mounted flush, and sealed. 

t Any other penetrations through the ceiling or walls shall be sealed. 

t The buffer area shall not contain sources of water (sinks) or floor drains. Work surfaces shall be constructed of smooth, impervious materials, such as 

stainless steel or molded plastic, so that they are easily cleaned and disinfected. 

t Carts shall be of stainless steel wire, nonporous plastic, or sheet metal construction with good quality, cleanable casters to promote mobility. 

t Storage shelving, counters, and cabinets shall be smooth, impervious, free from cracks and crevices, nonshedding, cleanable, and disinfectable. 

t Their number, design, and manner of installation the itmes above shall promote effective cleaning and disinfection. 

J 
If ceilings consist of inlaid panels, the panels should be impregnated with a polymer to render them impervious and hydrophobic. 
Dust-collecting overhangs, such as ceiling utility pipes, or ledges, such as windowsills, should be avoided. 

J 
Air returns should be mounted low on the wall creating a general top-down dilution of room air with HEPA-filtered make-up air. 

Placement of Primary Engineering Controls Within ISO Class 7 Buffer Areas 

1- Primary engineering controls for nonhazardous and nonradioactive CSPs are located in buffer areas, except for CAIs that are proven to maintain ISO 
Class 5 air when particle counts are sampled 6 to 12 inches upstream of critical site exposure areas during performance of normal inward and 
outward transfer of materials, and compounding manipulations when such CAIs are located in air quality worse than ISO Class 7. 

t Presterilization procedures for high-risk level CSP5, such as weighing and mixing, shall be completed in no worse than an ISO Class 8 environment. 

t Primary engineering controls shall be located out of traffic patterns and away from room air currents that could disrupt the intended airflow 
patterns. 

t When isolators are used for sterile compounding, the recovery time to achieve ISO Class 5 air quality shall be documented and internal procedures 
developed to ensure that adequate recovery time is allowed after material transfer before and during compounding operations. 

t When compounding activities require the manipulation of a patient's blood-derived or other biological material (e.g., radiolabeling a patient's or a 

donor's white blood cells), the manipulations shall be clearly separated from routine material-handling procedures and equipment used in CSP 

preparation activities, and they shall be controlled by specific standard operating procedures in order to avoid any cross-contamination. 

t Food, drinks, and items exposed in patient care areas, and unpacking of bulk supplies and personnel cleansing and garbing are prohibited from 
buffer areas or rooms. 

t Demarcation designation between buffer areas or rooms and ante-areas. 

t Antiseptic hand cleansing and sterile gloves in buffer areas or rooms. 

1 
Packaged compounding supplies and components, such as needles, syringes, tubing sets, and small- and large-volume parenterals, should be 

uncartoned and wiped down with a disinfectant that does not leave a residue (e.g., sterile 70% IPA) when possible in an ante-area, of ISO Class 8 air 
quality, before being passed into the buffer areas. 

Cleaning and Disinfecting the Sterile Compounding Areas 

t Trained personnel write detailed procedures including cleansers, disinfectants, and non-shedding wipe and mop materials. 

f Cleaning and disinfecting surfaces in the LAFWs, BSC5, CAIs, and CACI5 shall be cleaned and disinfected frequently, including at the beginning of 
each work shift, before each batch preparation is started, every 30 minutes during continuous compounding periods of individual CSPs, when there 
are spills, and when surface contamination is known or suspected from procedural breaches. 

t Trained compounding personnel are responsible for developing, implementing, and practicing the procedures for cleaning and disinfecting the DCA5 
written in the SOPs. 

f Cleaning and disinfecting shall occur before compounding is performed. Items shall be removed from all areas to be cleaned, and surfaces shall be 
cleaned by removing loose material and residue from spills, e.g., water-soluble solid residues are removed with Sterile Water (for Injection or 
Irrigation) and low-shedding wipes. This shall be followed by wiping with a residue-free disinfecting agent, such as sterile 70% IPA, which is allowed 
to dry before compounding begins. 

t Work surfaces in ISO Class 7 and 8 areas and segregated compounding areas are cleaned at least daily. 

f Dust and debris shall be removed when necessary from storage sites for compounding ingredients and supplies, using a method that does not 
degrade the ISO Class 7 or 8 air quality. 

t Floors in ISO Class 7 and 8 areas are cleaned daily when no compounding occurs. 

f IPA (70% isopropyl alcohol) remains on surfaces to be disinfected for at least 30 seconds before such surfaces are used to prepare CSPs. 



32 '(797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (continued) 

t Emptied shelving, walls, and ceilings in ante-areas are cleaned and disinfected at least monthly. 

t Mopping shall be performed by trained personnel using approved agents and procedures described in the written SOPs. 

t Cleaning and disinfecting agents, their schedules of use and methods of application shall be in accordance with written SOPs and followed by 
custodial and/or compounding personnel. 

t All cleaning materials, such as wipers, sponges, and mops, shall be nonshedding, preferably composed of synthetic micro fibers, and dedicated to 
use in the buffer area, or ante-area, and segregated compounding areas and shall not be removed from these areas except for disposal. 

t If cleaning materials are reused (e.g., mops), procedures shall be developed (based on manufacturer recommendations) that ensure that the 
effectiveness of the cleaning device is maintained and repeated use does not add to the bioburden of the area being cleaned. 

t Supplies and equipment removed from shipping cartons shall be wiped with a suitable disinfecting agent (e.g., sterile 70% IPA) delivered from a 

spray bottle or other suitable delivery method. 

t After the disinfectant is sprayed or wiped on a surface to be disinfected, the disinfectant shall be allowed to dry, and during this time the item shall 
not be used for compounding purposes. 

t Sterile 70% IPA wetted gauze pads or other particle-generating material shall not be used to disinfect the sterile entry points of packages and 
devices. 

Personnel Cleansing and Garbing 

t Personnel shall also be thoroughly competent and highly motivated to perform flawless aseptic manipulations with ingredients, devices, and 
components of CSPs. 

t Personnel with rashes, sunburn, weeping sores, conjunctivitis, active respiratory infection, and cosmetics are prohibited from preparing CSPs. 

t Compounding personnel shall remove personal outer garments; cosmetics; artificial nails; hand, wrist, and body jewelry that can interfere with the 
fit of gowns and gloves; and visible body piercing above the neck. 

t Order of compounding garb and cleansing in ante-area: shoes or shoe covers, head and facial hair covers, face mask, fingernail cleansing, hand and 
forearm washing and drying; non-shedding gown. 

t Order of cleansing and gloving in buffer room or area: hand cleansing with a persistently active alcohol-based product with persistent activity; allow 
hands to dry; don sterile gloves. 

t Routinely disinfect gloves with sterile 70% IPA after contacting nonsterile objects. 

t Inspect gloves for holes and replace when breaches are detected. 

t Personnel repeat proper procedures after they are exposed to direct contact contamination or worse than ISO Class 8 air. 

t These requirements are exempted only for immediate-use CSPs and CAIs for which manufacturers provide written documentation based on 
validated testing that such personnel practices are not required to maintain sterility in CSPs. 

Personnel Training and Competency Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures 

t Personnel who prepare CSP5 shall be trained conscientiously and skillfully by expert personnel, multi-media instructional sources, and professional 
publications in the theoretical principles and practical skills of garbing procedures, aseptic work practices, achieving and maintaining ISO Class 5 

environmental conditions, and cleaning and disinfection procedures. 

t This training shall be completed and documented before any compounding personnel begin to prepare CSP5. 

t Compounding personnel shall complete didactic training, pass written competence assessments, undergo skill assessment using observational audit 
tools, and media-fill testing. 

t Media-fill testing of aseptic work skills shall be performed initially before beginning to prepare CSPs and at least annually thereafter for low- and 
medium-risk level compounding; and semiannually for high-risk level compounding. 

t Compounding personnel who fail written tests, observational audits, or whose media-fill test vials have one or more units showing visible microbial 
contamination, shall be reinstructed and re-evaluated by expert compounding personnel to ensure correction of all aseptic work practice deficiencies. 

t Compounding personnel shall pass all evaluations prior to resuming compounding of sterile preparations. 

t Compounding personnel must demonstrate proficiency of proper hand hygiene, garbing, and consistent cleaning procedures in addition to didactic 
evaluation and aseptic media fill. 

t Cleaning and disinfecting procedures performed by other support personnel shall be thoroughly trained in proper hand hygiene, and garbing, 
cleaning, and disinfection procedures by a qualified aseptic compounding expert. 

t Support personnel shall routinely undergo performance evaluation of proper hand hygiene, garbing, and all applicable cleaning and disinfecting 
procedures conducted by a qualified aseptic compounding expert. 

Competency Evaluation of Garbing and Aseptic Work Practices 

t Compounding personnel shall be evaluated initially prior to beginning compounding CSP5 and whenever an aseptic media fill is performed using a 

Sample Form for Assessing Hand Hygiene and Garbing Related Practices of Compounding Personnel and the personnel glove fingertip sampling 
procedures. 

Aseptic Work Practice Assessment and Evaluation via Personnel Glove Fingertip Sampling 

f Monitoring of compounding personnel glove fingertips shall be performed for all CSP risk level compounding. 

t Glove fingertip sampling shall be used to evaluate the competency of personnel in performing hand hygiene and garbing procedures in addition to 
educating compounding personnel on proper work practices. 

f All personnel shall demonstrate competency in proper hand hygiene and garbing procedures in addition to aseptic work practices. 

t Sterile contact agar plates shall be used to sample the gloved fingertips of compounding personnel after garbing to assess garbing competency and 
after completing the media-fill preparation. 

f Gloves shall not be disinfected with sterile 70% IPA immediately prior to sampling. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 33 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (Continued) 

Garbing and Gloving Competency Evaluation 

t Compounding personnel shall be visually observed during the process of performing hand hygiene and garbing procedures. 

t The visual observation shall be documented on a Sample Form for Assessing Hand Hygiene and Garbing Related Practices of Compounding 
Personnel and maintained to provide a permanent record of and long-term assessment of personnel competency. 

Gloved Fingertip Sampling 

t Immediately after the compounder completes the hand hygiene and garbing procedure, the evaluator shall collect a gloved fingertip and thumb 
sample from both hands of the compounder onto appropriate agar plates by lightly pressing each finger tip into the agar. 

t The plates shall be incubated for the appropriate incubation period and at the appropriate temperature. 

t All employees shall successfully complete an initial competency evaluation and gloved fingertip/thumb sampling procedure (0 cfu) no less than three 
times before initially being allowed to compound CSP5 for human use. 

t After completing the initial gowning and gloving competency evaluation, re-evaluation of all compounding personnel shall occur at least annually 
for low- and medium-risk level CSP5 and semiannually for high-risk level CSPs before being allowed to continue compounding CSPs. 

t Gloves shall not be disinfected with sterile 70% IPA prior to testing. 

t The sampled gloves shall be immediately discarded and proper hand hygiene performed after sampling. The nutrient agar plates shall be incubated 
as stated below. 

t The cfu action level for gloved hands shall be based on the total number of cfu on both gloves and not per hand. 

1 
Results should be reported separately as number of cfu per employee per hand (left hand, right hand). 

Incubation Period 

t At the end of the designated sampling period, the agar plates are recovered, covers secured, inverted and incubated at a temperature and for a 

time period conducive to multiplication of microorganisms. Trypticase soy agar (TSA) with lecithin and polysorbate 80 shall be incubated at 35°± 2° 
for 2—3 days. 

Aseptic Manipulation Competency Evaluation 

t All compounding personnel shall have their aseptic technique and related practice competency evaluated initially during the media-fill test proce- 
dure and subsequent annual or semiannual media-fill test procedures on the Sample Form for Assessing Aseptic Technique and Related Practices of 
Compounding Personnel. 

Media-Fill Test Procedure 

t The skill of personnel to aseptically prepare CSPs shall be evaluated using sterile fluid bacterial culture media-fill verification. 

t Media-filled vials shall be incubated within a range of 35° ± 2° for 14 days. 

Surface Cleaning and Disinfection Sampling and Assessment 

t Surface sampling shall be performed in all ISO classified areas on a periodic basis and can be accomplished using contact plates and/or swabs and 
shall be done at the conclusion of compounding. 

t Locations to be sampled shall be defined in a sample plan or on a form. 
Cleaning and Disinfecting Competency Evaluation 

t Compounding personnel and other personnel responsible for cleaning shall be visually observed during the process of performing cleaning and 
disinfecting procedures during initial personnel training on cleaning procedures, changes in cleaning staff and at the completion of any Media-Fill 
Test Procedure. 

t Visual observation shall be documented on a Sample Form for Assessing Cleaning and Disinfection Procedures and maintained to provide a 

permanent record of, and long-term assessment of, personnel competency. 
Surface Collection Methods 

t Immediately after sampling a surface with the contact plate, the sampled area shall be thoroughly wiped with a non-shedding wipe soaked in sterile 
70% IPA. 

1 
Results should be reported as cfu per unit of surface area. 

Action Levels, Documentation, and Data Evaluation 

t Environmental sampling data shall be collected and reviewed on a routine basis as a means of evaluating the overall control of the compounding 
environment. 

t If an activity consistently shows elevated levels of microbial growth, competent microbiology personnel shall be consulted. 

t An investigation into the source of the contamination shall be conducted. 

f When gloved fingertip sample results exceeds action levels after proper incubation, a review of hand hygiene and garbing procedures as well as 

glove and surface disinfection procedures and work practices shall be performed and documented. 

1 
Any cfu count that exceeds its respective action level should prompt a re-evaluation of the adequacy of personnel work practices, cleaning 

procedures, operational procedures, and air filtration efficiency within the aseptic compounding location. 

SUGGESTED STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES 

f All facilities are required to have these, and they must include at least the items enumerated in this section. 

FINISHED PREPARATION RELEASE CHECKS AND TESTS 

Inspection of Solution Dosage Forms and Review of Compounding Procedures 

f Review procedures and documents to ensure sterility, purity, correct identities and amounts of ingredients, and stability. 

t Visually inspect for abnormal particulate matter and color, and intact containers and seals. 

Sterility Testing 

t High-risk level CSPs prepared in batches of more than 25 identical containers, or exposed longer than 12 hours at 2° to 8°, and 6 hours at warmer 
than 8° before being sterilized. 



34 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (continued) 

Bacterial Endotoxin (Pyrogen) Testing 

t High-risk level CSPs, excluding those for inhalation and ophthalmic administration, prepared in batches of more than 25 identical containers, or 
exposed longer than 12 hours at 2° to 8°, and 6 hours at warmer than 8°, before being sterilized. 

Identity and Strength Verification of Ingredients 

t Written procedures to verify correct identity, quality, amounts, and purities of ingredients used in CSPs. 

t Written procedures to ensure labels of CSPs contain correct names and amounts or concentrations of ingredients, total volumes, beyond-use dates, 
storage conditions, and route(s) of administration. 

STORAGE AND BEYOND-USE DATING 

Determining Beyond-Use Dates 

t Use the general criteria in USP in the absence of direct stability-indicating assays or authoritative literature that supports longer durations. 

MAINTAINING STERILITY, PURITY, AND STABILITY OF DISPENSED AND DISTRIBUTED CSP5 

t Written procedures for proper packaging, storage, and transportation conditions to maintain sterility, quality, purity, and strength of CSP5. 

Redispensed CSPs 

t When sterility, and acceptable purity, strength, and quality can be ensured. 

t Assignment of sterility storage times and stability beyond-use dates that occur later than those of originally dispensed CSP5 must be based on results 
of sterility testing and quantitative assay of ingredients. 

Packaging and Transporting CSPs 

t Packaging maintains physical integrity, sterility, stability, and purity of CSPs. 

t Modes of transport that maintain appropriate temperatures and prevent damage to CSP5. 

PATIENT OR CAREGIVER TRAINING 

t Multiple component formal training program to ensure patients and caregivers understand the proper storage, handling, use, and disposal of CSP5. 

PATIENT MONITORING AND ADVERSE EVENTS REPORTING 

t Written standard procedures describe means for patients to ask questions and report concerns and adverse events with CSPs, and for compounding 
supervisors to correct and prevent future problems. 

Adverse events and defects with CSP5 reported to FDA's MedWatch and USP's MEDMARX programs. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / '(797k Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 35 

Appendix ii. Common Disinfectants Used in Health Care for Inanimate Surfaces and Noncritical Devices, and Their Microbial Activity 
and Properties' 

Chemical Cateriorv of Dicinfectant 

Isopropyl 
alcohol 

Accelerated 
hydrogen 
peroxide 

Quaternary 
Ammonium 

(e.g., 
dodecyl 

dimethyl 
ammonium 
chloride) Phenolics 

Chlorine 
(e.g., 

sodium 
hypochlo- 

rite) 

lodophors 
(e.g., 

povidone- 
iodine) 

Concentration 
Used 60-95% 0.4-1.6% ag 0.4—1.6% ag 

100-5000 
ppm 30-50 ppm 

. 

Microbial Inactiva- 
tion2 

Bacteria + + + + + + 

Lipophilic viruses + + + + + + 

Hydrophilic viruses ± + ± ± + ± 
. 

M.tuberculosis ÷ + ± + + ± 

Mycotic agents 
(fungi) + + + + + ± 

Bacterial Spores — — — — + — 

Important Chemi- 
cal & Physical 
Properties 

Shelf life >1 week + + + + + + 

Corrosive or dele- 
terious effects ± — — — ± ± 

Non-evaporable 
residue — — + + — + 

Inactivated by or- 
ganic matter + ± + ± + + 

Skin irritant ± — + + + ± 

Eye irritant + — + ÷ + + 

Respiratory irritant — — — — + — 

Systemic toxicity + — + + + + 

Key to abbreviation and symbols: ag = diluted with water; ppm = parts per million; + = yes; — = no; ± = variable results. 
1 Modified from World Health Organization, Laboratory Bio Safety Manual 1983 and Rutala WA, "Antisepsis, disinfection and sterilization in the 
hospital and related institutions," Manual of Clinical Microbiology, American Society for Microbiology, Washington, DC, 1995, pages 227-245. 

2 Inactivation of the most common microorganisms (i.e., bacteria) occurs with a contact time of �1 minute; inactivation of spores requires longer 
contact times (e.g., 5-10 minutes for 5,000 ppm chlorine solution against C. difficile spores). Reference: Perez), Springthorpe VS. Sattar SA, "Activity of 
selected oxidizing microbicides against the spores of Clostridium difficile: Relevance to environmental control," American journal of Infection Control, August 
2005, pages 320-325. 

Accelerated hydrogen peroxide is a new generation of hydrogen peroxide-based germicides in which the potency and performance of the active 
ingredient have been enhanced and accelerated through the use of appropriate acids and detergents. 



36 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

Appendix Ill. Sample Form for Assessing Hand Hygiene and Garbing Related Practices of Compounding Personnel 

Printed name and position/title of person assessed: 

_______________________________________________ 

Name of facility or location: 

_______________________________________________ 

Hand Hygiene and Garbing Practices: The qualified evaluator will check each space for which the person being assessed has acceptably completed 
the described activity, prints N/A if the activity is not applicable to the assessment session or N/O if the activity was not observed.* 

_____________ 

Presents in a clean appropriate attire and manner. 

____________ 

Wears no cosmetics or jewelry (watches, rings, earrings, etc. piercing jewelry included) upon entry into ante-areas. 

____________ 

Brings no food or drinks into or stored in the ante-areas or buffer areas. 

_____________ 

Is aware of the line of demarcation separating clean and dirty sides and observes required activities. 

Dons shoe covers or designated clean-area shoes one at a time, placing the covered or designated shoe on clean side of the line of 

_____________ 

demarcation, as appropriate. 

____________ 

Dons beard cover if necessary. 

____________ 

Dons head cover assuring that all hair is covered. 

____________ 

Dons face mask to cover bridge of nose down to include chin. 

____________ 

Performs hand hygiene procedure by wetting hands and forearms and washing using soap and warm water for at least 30 seconds. 

____________ 

Dries hands and forearms using lint-free towel or hand dryer. 

_____________ 

Selects the appropriate sized gown examining for any holes, tears, or other defects. 

____________ 

Dons gown and ensures full closure. 

Disinfects hands again using a waterless alcohol-based surgical hand scrub with persistent activity and allows hands to dry thoroughly 

____________ 

before donning sterile gloves. 

_____________ 

Dons appropriate sized sterile gloves ensuring that there is a tight fit with no excess glove material at the fingertips. 

____________ 

Examines gloves ensuring that there are no defects, holes, or tears. 

While engaging in sterile compounding activities, routinely disinfects gloves with sterile 70% IPA prior to work in the direct com- 
pounding area (DCA) and after touching items or surfaces that may contaminate gloves. 

____________ 

Removes PPE on the clean side of the ante-area. 

____________ 

Removes gloves and performs hand hygiene. 

____________ 

Removes gown and discards it, or hangs it on hook if it is to be reused within the same work day. 

____________ 

Removes and discards mask, head cover, and beard cover (if used). 

Removes shoe covers or shoes one at a time, ensuring that uncovered foot is placed on the dirty side of the line of demarcation and 
performs hand hygiene again. (Removes and discards shoe covers every time the compounding area is exited). 

*The person assessed is immediately informed of all unacceptable activities (i.e., spaces lacking check marks, N/A, or N/O) and shown and 
informed of specific corrections. 

Signature of Person Assessed Printed Name Date 

Signature of Qualified Evaluator Printed Name Date 



USP 35 Physical Tests / '(797k Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 37 

Appendix IV. Sample Form for Assessing Aseptic Technique and Related Practices of Compounding Personnel 

Printed name and position/title of person assessed: 

_______________________________________________ 

Name of facility or location: 

_______________________________________________ 

Aseptic Technique, Safety, and Quality Assurance Practices: The qualified evaluator checks each space for which the person being assessed has 
acceptably completed the described activity, prints N/A if the activity is not applicable to the assessment session or Nb if the activity was not 
observed.* 

____________ 

Completes the Hand Hygiene and Garbing Competency Assessment Form. 

____________ 

Performs proper hand hygiene, garbing, and gloving procedures according to SOPs. 

____________ 

Disinfects ISO Class 5 device surfaces with an appropriate agent. 

_____________ 

Disinfects components/vials with an appropriate agent prior to placing into ISO Class 5 work area. 

_____________ 

Introduces only essential materials in a proper arrangement in the ISO Class 5 work area. 

_____________ 

Does not interrupt, impede, or divert flow of first-air to critical sites. 

____________ 

Ensures syringes, needles, and tubing remain in their individual packaging and are only opened in ISO Class 5 work area. 

____________ 

Performs manipulations only in the appropriate DCA of the ISO Class 5 device. 

_____________ 

Does not expose critical sites to contact contamination or worse than ISO Class 5 air. 

____________ 

Disinfects stoppers, injection ports, and ampul necks by wiping with sterile 70% IPA and allows sufficient time to dry. 

____________ 

Affixes needles to syringes without contact contamination. 

_____________ 

Punctures vial stoppers and spikes infusion ports without contact contamination. 

_____________ 

Labels preparation(s) correctly. 

____________ 

Disinfects sterile gloves routinely by wiping with sterile 70% IPA during prolonged compounding manipulations. 

____________ 

Cleans, sets up, and calibrates automated compounding device (e.g., "TPN compounder") according to manufacturer's instructions. 
Disposes of sharps and waste according to institutional policy or recognized guidelines. 

*The person assessed is immediately informed of all unacceptable activities (i.e., spaces lacking check marks, N/A, or N/O) and shown and 
informed of specific corrections. 

Signature of Person Assessed Printed Name Date 

Signature of Qualified Evaluator Printed Name Date 



38 '(797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

Appendix V. Sample Form for Assessing Cleaning and Disinfection Procedures 

Printed name and position/title of person assessed: 

_______________________________________________ 

Name of facility or location: 

_______________________________________________ 

Cleaning and Disinfection Practices: The qualified evaluator will check each space for which the person being assessed has acceptably completed the 
described activity, prints N/A if the activity is not applicable to the assessment session or Nb if the activity was not observed.* 

Daily Tasks: 

Prepares correct concentration of disinfectant solution according to manufacturer's instructions. 

_____________ 

Uses appropriately labeled container for the type of surface to be cleaned (floor, wall, production bins, etc.). 

_____________ 

Documents disinfectant solution preparation. 

____________ 

Follows garbing procedures when performing any cleaning activities. 

At the beginning of each shift, cleans all ISO Class 5 devices prior to compounding in the following order: walls, IV bar, automated 
compounders, and work surface. 

____________ 

Uses a lint free wipe soaked with sterile 70% PA or other approved disinfectant solution and allows to dry completely. 

____________ 

Removes all compounder components and cleans all ISO Class 5 areas as stated above at the end of each shift. 

_____________ 

Cleans all counters and easily cleanable work surfaces. 

Mops floors, using the mop labeled "floors," starting at the wall opposite the room entry door; mops floor surface in even strokes 
toward the operator. Moves carts as needed to clean entire floor surface. Use of a microfiber cleaning system is an acceptable 

_____________ 

alternative to mops. 

_____________ 

In the ante-area, cleans sink and all contact surfaces; cleans floor with a disinfectant solution or uses microfiber cleaning system. 

Monthly Tasks: 

Performs monthly cleaning on a designated day. Prepares a disinfectant solution as stated in daily tasks that is appropriate for the 

____________ 

surfaces to be cleaned. 

Cleans buffer area and ante-area ceiling, walls, and storage shelving with a disinfectant solution and a mop or uses a microfiber 
cleaning system. 

Once ISO Class 5 area is clean, cleans compounding room ceiling, followed by walls and ending with the floor. Uses appropriate 

____________ 

labeled mops or microfiber cleaning system. 

Cleans all buffer area totes and storage shelves by removing contents and using a germicidal detergent soaked lint free wipe, cleans 
the inside surfaces of the tote and then the entire exterior surfaces of the tote. Allows totes to dry. Prior to replacing contents into 

____________ 

tote, wipes tote with sterile 70% IPA to remove disinfectant residue. Uses new wipe as needed. 

Cleans all buffer area carts by removing contents and using germicidal detergent soaked lint free wipe, cleans all carts starting with 
the top shelf and top of post, working down to wheels. Cleans the under side of shelves in a similar manner. Uses a new wipe for 
each cart. Allows to dry. Wipes carts with sterile 70% IPA wetted lint-free wipe to remove any disinfectant residue. Uses new wipe as 

____________ 

needed. 

_____________ 

Cleans buffer area chairs, the interior and exterior of trash bins, and storage bins using disinfectant solution soaked lint free wipe. 

____________ 

Documents all cleaning activities as to who performed such activities with date and time noted. 

*The person assessed is immediately informed of all unacceptable activities (i.e., spaces lacking check marks, N/A, or N/O) and shown and 
informed of specific corrections. 

Signature of Person Assessed Printed Name Date 

Signature of Qualified Evaluator Printed Name Date 



of frauds against American manufacturers and has 
provided the cover for the importation of foreign 
counterfeit drugs. 

"(6) The existing system of providing drug samples 
to physicians through manufacturer's representatives 
has been abused for decades and has resulted in the 
sale to consumers of misbranded, expired, and adul- 
terated pharmaceuticals. 

"(7) The bulk resale of below wholesale priced pre- 
scription drugs by health care entities, for ultimate 
sale at retail, helps fuel the diversion market and is 
an unfair form of competition to wholesalers and re- 
tailers that must pay otherwise prevailing market 
prices. 

"(8) The effect of these several practices and condi- 
tions is to create an unacceptable risk that counter- 
feit, adulterated, misbranded, subpotent, or expired 
drugs will be sold to American consumers." 

§ 353a. Pharmacy compounding 
(a) In general 

Sections 351(a)(2)(B), 352(0(1), and 355 of this 
title shall not apply to a drug product if the 
drug product is compounded for an identified in- 
dividual patient based on the unsolicited receipt 
of a valid prescription order or a notation, ap- 
proved by the prescribing practitioner, on the 
prescription order that a compounded product is 
necessary for the identified patient, if the drug 
product meets the requirements of this section, 
and if the compounding— 

(1) is by— 
(A) a licensed pharmacist in a State li- 

censed pharmacy or a Federal facility, or 
(B) a licensed physician, 

on the prescription order for such individual 
patient made by a licensed physician or other 
licensed practitioner authorized by State law 
to prescribe drugs; or 

(2)(A) is by a licensed pharmacist or licensed 
physician in limited quantities before the re- 
ceipt of a valid prescription order for such in- 
dividual patient; and 

(B) is based on a history of the licensed 
pharmacist or licensed physician receiving 
valid prescription orders for the compounding 
of the drug product, which orders have been 
generated solely within an established rela- 
tionship between— 

(i) the licensed pharmacist or licensed phy- 
sician; and 

(ii)(I) such individual patient for whom the 
prescription order will be provided; or 

(II) the physician or other licensed practi- 
tioner who will write such prescription 
order. 

(b) Compounded drug 
(1) Licensed pharmacist and licensed physician 

A drug product may be compounded under 
subsection (a) of this section if the licensed 
pharmacist or licensed physician— 

(A) compounds the drug product using 
bulk drug substances, as defined in regula- 
tions of the Secretary published at section 
207.3(a)(4) of title 21 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations— 

(i) that— 
(I) comply with the standards of an ap- 

plicable United States Pharmacopoeia or 
National Formulary monograph, if a 
monograph exists, and the United States 

Pharmacopoeia chapter on pharmacy 
compounding; 

(II) if such a monograph does not exist, 
are drug substances that are components 
of drugs approved by the Secretary; or 

(III) if such a monograph does not exist 
and the drug substance is not a compo- 
nent of a drug approved by the Sec- 
retary, that appear on a list developed 
by the Secretary through regulations is- 
sued by the Secretary under subsection 
(d) of this section; 
(ii) that are manufactured by an estab- 

lishment that is registered under section 
360 of this title (including a foreign estab- 
lishment that is registered under section 
360(i) of this title); and 

(iii) that are accompanied by valid cer- 
tificates of analysis for each bulk drug 
substance; 
(B) compounds the drug product using in- 

gredients (other than bulk drug substances) 
that comply with the standards of an appli- 
cable United States Pharmacopoeia or Na- 
tional Formulary monograph, if a mono- 
graph exists, and the United States Pharma- 
copoeia chapter on pharmacy compounding; 

(C) does not compound a drug product that 
appears on a list published by the Secretary 
in the Federal Register of drug products that 
have been withdrawn or removed from the 
market because such drug products or com- 
ponents of such drug products have been 
found to be unsafe or not effective; and 

(D) does not compound regularly or in in- 
ordinate amounts (as defined by the Sec- 
retary) any drug products that are essen- 
tially copies of a commercially available 
drug product. 

(2) Definition 
For purposes of paragraph (1)(D), the term 

"essentially a copy of a commercially avail- 
able drug product" does not include a drug 
product in which there is a change, made for 
an identified individual patient, which pro- 
duces for that patient a significant difference, 
as determined by the prescribing practitioner, 
between the compounded drug and the com- 
parable commercially available drug product. 
(3) Drug product 

A drug product may be compounded under 
subsection (a) only if— 

(A) such drug product is not a drug prod- 
uct identified by the Secretary by regulation 
as a drug product that presents demon- 
strable difficulties for compounding that 
reasonably demonstrate an adverse effect on 
the safety or effectiveness of that drug prod- 
uct; and 

(B) such drug product is compounded in a 
State— 

(i) that has entered into a memorandum 
of understanding with the Secretary which 
addresses the distribution of inordinate 
amounts of compounded drug products 
interstate and provides for appropriate in- 
vestigation by a State agency of com- 
plaints relating to compounded drug prod- 
ucts distributed outside such State; or 

§ 353a TITLE 21—FOOD AND DRUGS Page 156 



Page 157 TITLE 21—FOOD AND DRUGS § 353b 

(ii) that has not entered into the memo- 
randum of understanding described in 
clause (i) and the licensed pharmacist, li- 
censed pharmacy, or licensed physician 
distributes (or causes to be distributed) 
compounded drug products out of the 
State in which they are compounded in 
quantities that do not exceed 5 percent of 
the total prescription orders dispensed or 
distributed by such pharmacy or physi- 
cian. 

The Secretary shall, in consultation with the 
National Association of Boards of Pharmacy, 
develop a standard memorandum of under- 
standing for use by the States in complying 
with subparagraph (B)(i). 

(c) Advertising and promotion 
A drug may be compounded under subsection 

(a) of this section only if the pharmacy, licensed 
pharmacist, or licensed physician does not ad- 
vertise or promote the compounding of any par- 
ticular drug, class of drug, or type of drug. The 
pharmacy, licensed pharmacist, or licensed phy- 
sician may advertise and promote the com- 
pounding service provided by the licensed phar- 
macist or licensed physician. 
(d) Regulations 

(1) In general 
The Secretary shall issue regulations to im- 

plement this section. Before issuing regula- 
tions to implement subsections 
(b)(1)(A)(i)(III), (b)(1)(C), or (b)(3)(A) of this 
section, the Secretary shall convene and con- 
sult an advisory committee on compounding 
unless the Secretary determines that the issu- 
ance of such regulations before consultation is 
necessary to protect the public health. The ad- 
visory committee shall include representa- 
tives from the National Association of Boards 
of Pharmacy, the United States Pharma- 
copoeia, pharmacy, physician, and consumer 
organizations, and other experts selected by 
the Secretary. 
(2) Limiting compounding 

The Secretary, in consultation with the 
United States Pharmacopoeia Convention, In- 
corporated, shall promulgate regulations iden- 
tifying drug substances that may be used in 
compounding under subsection (b)(1)(A)(i)(III) 
of this section for which a monograph does not 
exist or which are not components of drug 
products approved by the Secretary. The Sec- 
retary shall include in the regulation the cri- 
teria for such substances, which shall include 
historical use, reports in peer reviewed medi- 
cal literature, or other criteria the Secretary 
may identify. 

(e) Application 
This section shall not apply to— 

(1) compounded positron emission tomog- 
raphy drugs as defined in section 321(H) of this 
title; or 

(2) radiopharmaceuticals. 
(f) "Compounding" defined 

As used in this section, the term "compound- 
ing" does not include mixing, reconstituting, or 
other such acts that are performed in accord- 

ance with directions contained in approved la- 
beling provided by the product's manufacturer 
and other manufacturer directions consistent 
with that labeling. 
(June 25, 1938, ch. 675, §503A, as added Pub. L. 
105—115, title I, § 127(a), Nov. 21, 1997, 111 Stat. 
2328.) 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

Section 127(b) of Pub. L. 105—115 provided that: "Sec- 
tion 503A of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act 
21 U.S.C. 353a], added by subsection (a), shall take ef- 
feet upon the expiration of the 1-year period beginning 
on the date of the enactment of this Act Nov. 21, 
1997]." 

§ 353b. Prereview of television advertisements 

(a) In general 
The Secretary may require the submission of 

any television advertisement for a drug (includ- 
ing any script, story board, rough, or a com- 
pleted video production of the television adver- 
tisement) to the Secretary for review under this 
section not later than 45 days before dissemina- 
tion of the television advertisement. 
(b) Review 

In conducting a review of a television adver- 
tisement under this section, the Secretary may 
make recommendations with respect to informa- 
tion included in the label of the drug— 

(1) on changes that are— 
(A) necessary to protect the consumer 

good and well-being; or 
(B) consistent with prescribing informa- 

tion for the product under review; and 
(2) if appropriate and if information exists, 

on statements for inclusion in the advertise- 
ment to address the specific efficacy of the 
drug as it relates to specific population 
groups, including elderly populations, chil- 
dren, and racial and ethnic minorities. 

(c) No authority to require changes 
Except as provided by subsection (e), this sec- 

tion does not authorize the Secretary to make 
or direct changes in any material submitted 
pursuant to subsection (a). 
(d) Elderly populations, children, racially and 

ethnically diverse communities 
In formulating recommendations under sub- 

section (b), the Secretary shall take into consid- 
eration the impact of the advertised drug on el- 
derly populations, children, and racially and 
ethnically diverse communities. 
(e) Specific disclosures 

(1) Serious risk; safety protocol 
In conducting a review of a television adver- 

tisement under this section, if the Secretary 
determines that the advertisement would be 
false or misleading without a specific disclo- 
sure about a serious risk listed in the labeling 
of the drug involved, the Secretary may re- 
quire inclusion of such disclosure in the adver- 
tisement. 
(2) Date of approval 

In conducting a review of a television adver- 
tisement under this section, the Secretary 



THE COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE 

November 12, 2012 

MAJORITY MEMORANDUM 

TO: Members, Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations 

FROM: Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations Staff 

RE: Hearing on "The Fungal Meningitis Outbreak: Could It Have Been Prevented?" 

On Wednesday, November 14, 2012, at 10:00 a.m. in room 2123 of the Rayburn House 
Office Building, the Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations will hold a hearing entitled 
"The Fungal Meningitis Outbreak: Could It Have Been Prevented?" 

This hearing will examine the facts surrounding the recent outbreak of fungal meningitis 
and other infections linked to contaminated injectable products made and distributed by the New 
England Compounding Center (NECC) in Framingham, Massachusetts. This hearing will also 
examine the history of complaints associated with NECC and its affiliated entities as well as 
related inspections and actions taken by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and the 
Massachusetts Department of Public Health (MDPH). 

I. WITNESSES 

Panel One 

Ms. Joyce Lovelace 

Panel Two 

Mr. Barry J. Cadden 
President, Co-Owner and Director of Pharmacy 
New England Compounding Center 

Panel Three 

The Honorable Margaret A. Hamburg, MD 
Commissioner 
U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 2 

Dr. Lauren Smith, MD, MPH 
Interim Commissioner 
Massachusetts Department of Public Health (MDPH) 

II. BACKGROUND - THE CURRENT OUTBREAK 

This section of the memorandum details the facts surrounding the current outbreak and 
the investigation of the outbreak by State and Federal regulators. In Part III, the memorandum 
describes the history of Federal and State inspections of NECC and resulting regulatory actions 
since the Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy (MBP or Massachusetts Board of 
Pharmacy) approved the company's pharmacy license in 1998. 

A. The Fun gal Meningitis Outbreak 

As of November 9, 2012, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has 
confirmed that 32 people have died and 438 people have been sickened across 19 states after 
receiving contaminated injectable products made and distributed by NECC. 

The first case of meningitis connected to this outbreak was confirmed on September 18, 
2012, in Tennessee. On September 21, 2012, CDC was notified by the Tennessee Department of 
Health (TDH) of a patient with the onset of meningitis approximately 19 days after receiving an 
epidural steroid injection at an ambulatory surgical center in Nashville. By September 24, 2012, 
TDH officials contacted MDPH informing them that it was investigating an outbreak of fungal 
meningitis in six patients at the same Nashville facility, with onsets between July 30 and 
September 18, 2012. All six patients had received the same injectable steroid, preservative-free 
methylprednisolone acetate (80 mg/ml), compounded and distributed by NECC. 

On September 25, 2012, CDC informed FDA of the situation and that three lots of 
methylprednisolone acetate were suspected. Methylprednisolone acetate is a type of injectable 
steroid suspension often used to treat pain and swelling. MDPH convened a multi-agency 
teleconference with CDC, FDA, and Tennessee officials. Mr. Barry Cadden and Mr. Gregory 
Conigliaro, principal owners of NECC, joined the call as well. Mr. Cadden and Mr. Conigliaro 
immediately provided documentation of all facilities that had received shipments from the three 
suspect lots of methylprednisolone acetate. On September 26, 2012, NECC instituted a 
voluntary recall of the suspect lots. In total, 17,676 doses had been shipped to customers in 23 
states. More than 14,000 patients had already received a potentially contaminated injection. 
Based on surveillance efforts, CDC soon identified a patient in North Carolina displaying 
symptoms of meningitis after receiving an injection from one of the suspect lots. 

From September 26, 2012, through October 5, 2012, investigators from FDA's New 
England District Office (FDA NWE-DO) and MDPH inspected the NECC facility. During their 
inspection, State and Federal investigators observed visible black particulate matter in sealed 
vials of purportedly sterile methylprednisolone acetate that had been returned to NECC. MDPH 
noted that NECC's records showed inconsistencies in sterilization processes. The Massachusetts 
Board of Pharmacy voted to obtain a voluntary surrender of NECC 'S license, which NECC 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 3 

agreed to on October 3. NECC also agreed to a voluntary recall of all products intended for 
injection into the area around the spinal cord or brain. On October 4, FDA and MDPH 
confirmed that fungal contamination had been identified in a vial from one of the suspect lots. 
FDA and CDC recommended that all health care professionals cease use and remove any 
material produced by NECC from their facilities.' On October 6, NECC announced a voluntary 
recall of all NECC products currently in circulation. On October 8, Mr. Cadden and Mr. Glenn 2 voluntarily ceased practice as pharmacists pending completion of the 3 In 
addition to the evidence of contamination, investigators also found evidence that the NECC had 
not been compounding drugs for patient-specific prescriptions. Instead, the NECC accepted 
patient lists generated by a clinical facility and provided to NECC for the purpose of obtaining its 
products. On October 16, agents from FDA's Office of Criminal Investigations, along with local 
authorities, raided the NECC Framingham, Massachusetts facility. 

The MDPH and FDA also inspected two other companies owned by Barry Cadden, 
Ameridose, LLC (Ameridose) and Alaunus Pharmaceutical, LLC (Alaunus) on October 10, 
2012, and October 14, 2012, respectively. NECC, Ameridose, and Alaunus share common 
ownership and corporate structures. Cadden is a co-owner of Ameridose, a pharmacy and 
wholesaler based in Westborough, Massachusetts, and Alaunus, a wholesaler located next to 
NECC in Framingham. Cadden, his wife, Lisa Conigliaro-Cadden, her brother, Gregory 
Conigliaro, and his wife, Carla Conigliaro, serve as directors of all three companies. Based on 
their shared ownership, MDPH requested that Ameridose and Alaunus cease all pharmacy 
operations and the manufacturing and distribution of any products. According to MDPH, Mr. 
Cadden agreed to immediately resign as manager, director and from any other management 
position at NECC, Ameridose, and Alaunus. 

The FDA's investigation of the fungal meningitis outbreak has expanded beyond 
NECC's methylprednisolone acetate product. For example, FDA confirmed the report of a 
patient with meningitis-like symptoms potentially caused by epidural injection of a different 
NECC product, triamcinolone acetonide. In addition, one transplant patient developed a fungal 
infection after having been administered NECC-produced cardioplegic solution during surgery. 
Based on these reports, FDA announced that the sterility of any injectable drugs, including 
ophthalmic drugs that are injectable or used in conjunction with eye surgery, and cardioplegic 
solutions produced by NECC are of significant concern. FDA recommended that patients who 
received these products on or after May 21, 2012, be alerted to the potential risk of infection. 

1 FDA subsequently released definitive laboratory confirmation of the presence of fungal contaminants in sealed 
vials of methylprednisolone acetate in two of the three suspected lots from NECC. As of November 3, 2012, testing 
of the third lot, as well as other NECC products, was ongoing. 
2 MDPH referred to Mr. Chin as a ] at NECC" in its preliminary investigative report. MASS. DEP'T OF PUB. 

HEALTH, NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING CENTER (NECC) PRELIMINARY INVESTIGATION FINDINGS: BD. OF 

REGISTRATION IN PHARMACY REPORT, at 7 (Oct. 23, 2012) hereinafter, "MDPH OCT. 23, 2012 REPORT"I. In a 
discussion with Committee staff, Mr. Chin's counsel stated that he started with the company on April 21, 2004 and 
was the compounding pharmacist in one of NECC's clean rooms until the company ceased operations. 

On October 22, 2012, MBP authorized MDPH staff to request voluntary permanent surrender of the licenses of 
Barry Cadden, Glenn Chin, and Lisa Conigliaro-Cadden, as well as NECC. According to MDPH, in response to an 
inquiry from Committee staff on November 4, this process is ongoing. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 4 

FDA reported on October 31, 2012, that Ameridose was voluntarily recalling all of its 
unexpired products in circulation. While the investigation remained open at the time of the 
announcement, FDA stated that its preliminary findings raised sterility concerns. The agency 
further clarified that the recall was not based on reports of patients with infections associated 
with any Ameridose product. 

On November 1, 2012, FDA and CDC released laboratory results that confirmed 
contaminants in two other NECC products: preservative-free betamethasone repository injection 
and cardioplegia solution. Bacteria were present in three separate lots of betamethasone and in a 
single lot of cardioplegia solution. CDC continues to investigate reports of potential infections 
in patients receiving NECC products. As of November 1, CDC had not received reports of 
laboratory-confirmed cases of infection due to bacteria present in betamethasone or cardioplegia 
solution from NECC. 

B. Preliminary Findings Released by State and Federal Regulators Regarding the 
Outbreak 

On October 23, 2012, MDPH issued a Board of Registration in Pharmacy Report setting 
forth its preliminary findings relating to the ongoing investigation into the 4 In 
addition, on October 26, 2012, FDA released its inspectional observations as well as a 
corresponding Form FDA 483 (483) to 5 

As previously discussed, investigators from FDA NWE-DO and MDPH first visited the 
NECC facility in connection with this outbreak on September 26, 2012. According to MDPH, 
upon arriving at NECC, investigators found NECC employees cleaning sterile compounding 
areas. They also detected signs of bleach 6 Despite NECC's apparent attempt 
to present the facility as compliant, State investigators still identified "serious deficiencies and 
significant violations of pharmacy law and regulations that clearly placed the public's health and 
safety at 7 

During the facility inspections, MDPH documented numerous deficiencies and 
violations, including the following: 

See MDPH OCT. 23, 2012 REPORT, supra note 2. MDPH noted that this report constitutes early findings that may 
be subject to revision as the investigation unfolds. Id. at 2. 

See U.S. FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING CENTER FORM FDA 483 (Oct. 26, 2012), 
available at 

AElectronicReadingRoom/UCM325980.pdf hereinafter, "FDA OCT. 26,2012 FORM 483"]. FDA issues a Form 483 
at the end of an inspection when the investigators believe that the observed conditions or practices, in their 
judgment, may indicate violations of the Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act or any related regulations. FDA has stated 
that its goal in issuing a 483 is to have the company act quickly to correct potential violations. The FDA considers 
the 483 along with an Establishment Inspection Report (EIR), prepared by FDA investigators, and any other 
information, including any responses received from the company. The agency then considers whether further action 
is appropriate. 
6 MDPH OCT. 23, 2012 REPORT, supra note 2, at 6. 

1d. at2. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 5 

• NECC distributed large batches of compounded sterile products directly to facilities for 
apparent general use rather than requiring a prescription for an individual 8 

• NECC distributed two of the recalled lots of methylprednisolone acetate prior to 
receiving results of sterility 9 

• Final sterilization of product did not follow proper standards pursuant to United States 
Pharmacopeia Standard 797 (USP 797) and NECC's own Standard Operating 
Procedures. 

• NECC failed to test its autoclaves to ensure proper function. 

• Visible black particulate matter was seen in several recalled sealed vials of 
methylprednisolone acetate. 12 

• "Tacky" mats located outside the clean room were visibly soiled with assorted debris, 
violating USP 79713 

• A leaking boiler adjacent to the clean room had created a pool of water, an environment 
susceptible to contaminant 14 
FDA investigators documented similar observations in the 483, as well as additional 

problems with NECC's ability to maintain its clean room and ensure the sterility of its products, 
as further supported by sample testing results. FDA's observations included the following: 

• Eighty-three vials out of a bin containing 321 vials of methylprednisolone acetate from 
one of the suspect lots contained what appeared to be greenish black foreign matter. 
Seventeen vials from the same bin were observed to contain what appeared to be white 
filamentous material. Fifty of these vials were sent to an FDA laboratory for testing and 
all 50 tested positive for microbial 15 

Id at3. 
1d. at 4. MDPH noted that while NECC's records showed that the sterility tests found no contamination, the 
adequacy of NECC's sterility testing methods remained under examination. 
'°Id. 

Id. An autoclave is a device used to sterilize equipment by subjecting it to high pressure steam. If done properly, 
all bacteria and fungi would be inactivated. 
1d. 
13 Id. A clean room is an enclosed space that is designed and maintained to have a controlled environment with low 
levels of airborne particles and surface contamination. Production of sterile drug products in a properly functioning 
and maintained clean room reduces the risk of the introduction of microbial contamination into the drug during 
processing, including filling into its final container. 
Id. at5. 
15 FDA OcT. 26, 2012 FoRM 483, supra note 5, at 1. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 6 

• NECC provided no documentation or evidence to support that the autoclave used to 
sterilize suspensions formulated using non-sterile active pharmaceutical ingredients and 
raw materials was 6 

• NECC is abutted to the rear by a recycling facility producing airborne particulates. 
NECC rooftop HVAC units were estimated to be located approximately 100 feet from the 
recycling 7 

• NECC's air conditioning was turned off at night, including in the clean rooms, despite the 
importance of maintaining a consistent temperature and level of 8 

• NECC's own environmental monitoring program yielded violative levels of bacteria and 
mold in clean rooms used for the production of sterile drug products, between January 
2012 and September 2012. Despite the company's action limits having been exceeded, 
there was no investigation conducted by the company, no identification of the isolates, no 
product impact assessments conducted, and no documented corrective actions taken to 
remove the microbial contamination from the 9 
Further, according to Steven Lynn, Director of FDA's Office of Manufacturing and 

Product Quality, on an October 26, 2012, media call describing FDA's observations and test 
results, there was overgrowth of bacteria or fungi in at least one sample testing dish. When 
asked to clarify what he meant, Mr. Lynn stated, "Think of a plant just growing out of ° 

III. HISTORY OF STATE AND FEDERAL INVESTIGATIONS OF NECC 

While investigating the meningitis outbreak over the last six weeks, FDA and MDPH 
investigators have observed many serious deficiencies and significant violations of law and good 
compounding practices. These violations, however, were not a first for NECC. Documents 
produced to the Committee by the FDA and the Massachusetts Board show that NECC has a 
long history of very similar, if not identical, underlying misconduct. Some of the violations 
observed by regulators as early as 2002 include the company's failure to maintain adequate 
safeguards for sterile injectable products the very issue at the center of the current meningitis 
outbreak. In fact, since the company's formation, FDA conducted three prior series of 
inspections of NECC, each based on a separate set of allegations or events, issuing two Form 
483s in 2002 and 2003 and one Warning Letter in 2006. The Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy 
has an even more extensive history with NECC. Prior to this outbreak, the Board had 
investigated at least twelve separate complaints concerning NECC or Mr. Cadden, issued at least 

1d. 
1d. at7. 
1d. at 1. 

1d. 
20 Media Call, U.S. Food & Drug Admin., FDA Media Call: Fungal Meningitis Outbreak FDA Inspection 
Observations (Form 483) at NECC (Oct. 26, 2012) (statement of Steven Lynn, Dir., Office of Mfg. & Product 
Quality, Office of Compliance, Ctr. for Drug Evaluation & Research, FDA). 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 7 

four advisory letters and/or informal reprimands, and entered into a consent agreement with the 
company in 2006. 

Set forth below is the chronology of FDA's and the Massachusetts Board's inspections 
and involvement with the NECC, including any resulting administrative actions. 

A. Formation of NECC 

On May 12, 1998, MBP approved NECC's pharmacy license. Mr. Barry Cadden was 
listed as the managing pharmacist. Less than a year later, in April 1999, MBP filed a complaint 
against Mr. Cadden for providing a practitioner with blank prescription pads referring to NECC, 
in clear violation of MBP ' The MBP Complaint Committee reviewed the 
complaint on October 19, 1999, and voted to issue an informal reprimand to Mr. Cadden and 
NECC and dismiss the case. 

NEC C's efforts to market its products were the subject of additional complaints starting 
in 2001. On June 27, 2001, MBP staff completed an investigation into a report submitted by the 
Idaho Board of Pharmacy that NECC was soliciting business for drug products which should 
have been discontinued by the manufacturer. In addition, on April 18, 2002, MBP received a 
letter from the Nevada Board of Pharmacy describing allegations of NECC selling non FDA- 
approved products to physicians in Nevada. Committee staff is unaware of any additional 
administrative or disciplinary actions taken as a result of these reports. 

Further, based on various complaints of unprofessional conduct and failure to adhere to 
standards of practice between 2002 and 2004, MBP issued three advisory letters to Mr. Cadden 
and NECC on September 30, 2004. Each of the advisory letters addressed complaints made by 
out-of-state pharmacists or practitioners in Texas, South Dakota, Iowa, and Wisconsin. Each of 
these complaints related to NECC's solicitation of out-of-state prescriptions for office use. The 
three advisory letters issued by the Massachusetts Board stated that the letters did not constitute 
disciplinary action but communicated the Board's concern regarding the conduct that was the 
basis for the complaint. The letters requested that NECC adopt "quality assurance measures. 
to reduce the risk of 22 

B. 2002 Inspections Related to Betamethasone Repository Injection 

In March 2002, two adverse events were reported to FDA through its MedWatch 23 Both adverse events involved epidural betamethasone repository injections 

21 247 CMR § 9.0l(l),(13). 
22 Advisory Letter from James T. Devita, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Bany Cadden, 
Manager of Record, New England Compounding Ctr. (Sept. 30, 2004) (Docket Nos. DS-03-060, PH-03-070 
Texas). See also Advisory Letter from James T. Devita, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Barry 
Cadden, Manager of Record, New England Compounding Ctr. (Sept. 30, 2004) (Docket Nos. DS-04-062, PH-04- 
161 Iowa and Wisconsin) and Advisory Letter from James T. Devita, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in 
Pharmacy, to Barry Cadden, Manager of Record, New England Compounding Ctr. (Sept. 30, 2004) (Docket Nos. 
DS-03-036, PH-03-042 South Dakota). 
23 The investigative report corresponding to an April 16, 2002 FDA Form 483 states that FDA investigators 
contacted the MedWatch reporter who informed them that "a total of probably 5 incidents occurred after using 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 8 

(betamethasone acetate and betamethasone sodium phosphate suspension 6 mg/mi), from the 
same lot compounded and distributed by NECC. Like methylprednisolone acetate, 
betamethasone repository injections are steroid solutions often used to treat pain and swelling. 
FDA alerted the MBP and invited them to participate in an inspection commencing April 9, 
2002. FDA noted in its investigative report that the agency had no previous investigation or 
inspection history with the firm, though MBP had inspected NECC in the past. 

While the investigation was underway, FDA investigators were informed of the fact that 
this was the same formulation compounded by a pharmacy in California that was associated with 
numerous hospitalizations (including five cases of meningitis, three of which were fatal) in 
Walnut Creek, California the previous year. Before detailing areas of concern and related 
discussions with NECC management, FDA' s investigative report states, "Very similar 
operational problems existed with the California Compounding Pharmacy that were encountered 
with 24 

On the day the inspection began, Barry Cadden was identified as the Owner and Director 
of Pharmacy at NECC. He identified his wife, Lisa Cadden, as Vice President and introduced 
her to investigators on the second day of the inspection. According to the report, Mr. Cadden 
stated that NECC had eight employees, three of whom were involved in compounding, though he 
was the only individual who compounded sterile product. He informed investigators that "they 
fill patient specific prescriptions only, and that they have no wholesale 25 

According to FDA's inspection report, on the first day of the inspection, "Mr. Cadden 
was cooperative and] supplied some documents. The second day of the inspection, Mr. Cadden 
had a complete change in attitude and] basically would not provide any additional information 
either by responding to questions or providing records. Mr. Cadden challenged FDA 
jurisdiction/authority to be at his 26 FDA investigators were initially "allowed to 
review and were furnished with copies of records related to the compounding of Betamethasone 
Repository Injection," though by the second day, "Mr. Cadden stated that he was no longer 
willing to provide us with any additional records, unless we would identify the specific lot. 

subject Betamethasone on patients." U.S. FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., FDA INSPECTION REPORT OF NEW ENGLAND 

COMPOUNDING PHARMACY, INC., at 4 (Apr. 16, 2002) hereinafter, "FDA APR. 16,2002 INSPECTION REPORT"]. In a 
February 2003 presentation to MBP, FDA identified the adverse events as "dizziness, shortness of breath, 
diaphoresis, drop in blood pressure to 55/44." U.S. Food & Drug Admin., Inspectional History of New England 
Compounding Center (NECC), Presentation to Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, Div. of Health Professions 
Licensure, Dep't of Pub. Health, Commonwealth of Mass. (Feb. 5, 2003) hereinafter, "Feb. 5, 2003 FDA 
Presentation"]. 
24 FDA APR. 16, 2002 INSPECTION REPORT, supra note 23, at 3. 
25 Id. at 6. 
26 Id. at 2. Questions and discussion regarding issues related to FDA's jurisdiction and authority are addressed in 
detail later in this memorandum. With respect to the April 2002 inspection, the FDA investigative report cites § 

704(a) of the FDCA, which describes the nature of FDA inspectional authority with regard to drug manufacturers, 
pharmacies, and other entities, and specifically excludes traditional retail pharmacies, operating in accordance with 
local pharmacy laws, from being obligated to furnish certain records. The report summarizes, that the investigators' 
inspectional authority at pharmacies operating in a retail capacity consists of being able to "enter, at reasonable 
times (Section 704(a)(l)(A), and inspect, at reasonable times, and within reasonable limits and in a reasonable 
manner (Section 704(a)(1)(b), the establishment and its equipment and operations. However, the owner of the 
pharmacy is not obligated to furnish records, as is normally the case when a facility that processes drug products is 
being inspected." Id. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 9 

that was the focus of this investigation. Since we had been specifically directed by FDA's 
Office of Compliance in the Center for Drug Evaluation and Research (CDER)] not to divulge 
this lot number, we were not in a position to comply with Mr. Cadden's request. From this point 
on, no additional records were provided or 27 

Nonetheless, FDA investigators had managed to obtain a printout of the betamethasone 
products compounded by NECC in 2002 and identified the suspect lot on the list, which 
according to the lot number was compounded on February 1, 2002. Mr. Cadden informed FDA 
that there were no compounding records associated with the suspect lot number. According to 
FDA's report, Mr. Cadden stated that he did not believe betamethasone was ever compounded 
for that lot number, although FDA noted that Mr. Cadden "could not provide any documents to 
support his belief, such as a cancelled lot 28 Further, FDA investigators contacted the 
healthcare professional who reported the adverse events to confirm that the suspect lot existed. 
That individual informed FDA that he had returned the betamethasone product to NECC and, in 
fact, had spoken by telephone to Mr. Cadden about the 29 

While FDA's investigative report did not mention any test results of the suspect lot in 
question, the MBP report stated, "The FDA was concerned regarding a specific date the Batch of 
Betamethasone Repository 6mg/ml was compounded. The error was first reported in March 
2002. The unnamed facility conducted sterility and Endotoxin tests on the product prepared by 
NECC, the results indicated a positive test for ° While FDA did not include this 
specific test result in its investigative report, FDA did discuss other positive endotoxin test 
results of betamethasone samples from NECC lots. 

According to the FDA report, on April 9, 2002, "Mr. Cadden stated on/about 3/19/02 
through 4/6/02 he received ARL (Analytical Research Laboratories)] results positive for 
endotoxin (greater than 100 ppb). . . . He stated these lots (about 4 lots total) were awaiting 
disposal at his facility." 31 After changing the suspending agent based on research he conducted, 
Mr. Cadden informed investigators that he made an additional lot on April 6, 2002. He stated 
that he "sent his samples to ARL, then left the product beaker covered with aluminum foil on the 
magnetic stirrer in the hood awaiting lab results" and that it "could take anywhere from seven to 
ten days to obtain lab 32 When questioned about this practice, "Mr. Cadden stated he 
didn't want to waste the money on vials or the effort in transfilling the vials if the 4/6/02 lot 
failed testing. He stated he would transfill the vials upon receiving satisfactory lab 33 
FDA investigators "discussed with Mr. Cadden that this was not an acceptable process for 
maintaining product 34 When FDA investigators returned to NECC on April 10, "the 

Id at3. Id at4. 
29 Id. 
MAs5. DEP'T OF PUB. HEALTH, INVESTIGATION REPORT OF NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING CENTER & BARRY 

CADDEN, at 5 (Mar. 4, 2004) hereinafter, "MDPH MAR. 4, 2004 INVESTIGATION REPORT"I. 
31 FDA APR. 16, 2002 INSPECTION REPORT, supra note 23, at 7. Analytical Research Laboratories (ARL) is a third- 
party analytical testing lab located in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma that NECC has sent samples to for sterility and 
endotoxin testing since at least 2002. 
32 Id. 

Id. 
Id. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 10 

hood was clean and Mr. Cadden was asked the whereabouts of the 4/06/02 lot. He stated he 
received negative lab results the night before, and had transfilled the lot into vials that morning. 
He accredited the positive endotoxins to the previous suspending 35 FDA did not 
comment on this assertion, nor is it known how long Mr. Cadden had been using the previous 
suspending agent. According to the report, "The FDA investigator suggested to Mr. Cadden that 
he retest the 4/6/02 lot again after transfihling the vials since the product sat in a beaker for 5 

days," which he agreed to 36 
After completing the inspection, FDA investigators concluded that d]ue to 

jurisdictionlconfidentiality restrictions, this FDA investigation could not proceed to any 
definitive resolution of issues raised in the FDA] Headquarters assignment" and that individuals 
in CDER's Office of Compliance "were fully informed of problems/barriers that were 
encountered throughout the 37 FDA's investigative report was finalized on April 16, 
2002. Prior to concluding the investigation, FDA investigators spoke with officials in CDER's 
Office of Compliance and FDA NWE-DO about NECC's "poor practices and areas of concern" 
and "impressed upon them] that due to limitations on information gathering and access to 
records, the FD-483 observations could not/would not be supported with 38 
Nonetheless, "FDA Investigators were directed to issue the 483 (even in light of the lack of 39 The observations in the 483 focused primarily on two violations: the sterility 
of the betamethasone product and NECC's failure to account for records related to the suspect lot 
of betamethasone, which subsequently tested positive for ° 

After issuing the 483, Mr. Cadden was given an opportunity to respond to FDA 
investigators' observations during an exit interview. With regard to the sterility of the beaker, 
and keeping the solution in the beaker for seven to ten days while waiting for test results, Mr. 
Cadden claimed that this was not his usual ' FDA's report also indicated that Mr. 
Cadden provided contradictory information to the agency. During the exit interview, Mr. 
Cadden claimed that the beaker capped with foil "didn't contain the betamethasone 42 

The report completed by the Massachusetts Board substantiated FDA's observations 
about NECC's practices. Specifically, it noted that the beaker remained in the hood capped with 
foil while tests were conducted, a process which could take up to seven 43 

In February 2003, following the April 2002 inspections with FDA, the MBP filed formal 
complaints against NECC and Mr. Cadden "based on the failure to adhere to standards of 
practice for compounding prescriptions. Specifically, the pharmacy and pharmacist engaged in 
unprofessional conduct as exhibited :] failing to follow guidelines, sterility procedures, record 

Id. 
36 Id. 
1d. at5. 
1d. 
1d. 
See U.S. FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING PHARMACY, INC. FORM FDA 483 (Apr. 16, 2002) 
hereinafter, "FDA APR. 16, 2002 FORM 483"I. 
41 

See FDA APR. 16, 2002 INSPECTION REPORT, supra note 23, at 10. 
42 Id. 
See MDPH MAR. 4, 2004 INVESTIGATION REPORT, supra note 30, at 6. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 11 

keeping requirements, and] batch records requirements], and] failing to provide certificates of 
analysis, rroof of sterility testing, Endotoxin test results, batch numbers and prescriptions upon 
request." 

On February 7, 2003, the MBP investigator requested that NECC provide responses to 
certain questions raised during the investigation. Documents produced to the Committee show 
that the Massachusetts Board found that NECC took certain corrective measures in February 
2003, including hiring a consultant to develop policy and 45 The MBP subsequently 
conducted follow-up inspections on February 20, 2003, and one year later on February 20, 2004. 
According to the MBP report, the investigator found the facility was in 46 Even so, 
the MBP investigator recommended that the Board issue a formal reprimand to NECC. 
According to the report, which was signed by the investigator and her supervisor on March 4, 
2004, the investigator based her decision on NECC's "history as it d] to prior concerns of 
the Board agents since 

One particular concern, which was raised between the investigator's April 2002 
inspections with FDA and her recommendation for formal reprimand, may have informed her 
decision. In October 2002, FDA investigators informed the MBP that a second incident with 
NECC had occurred, this one involving methylprednisolone 48 

C. 2002 Inspections Related to Methylprednisolone Acetate 

On October 2, 2002, CDER's Office of Compliance requested an FDA NWE-DO 
investigation to obtain information regarding three MedWatch reports associated with the use of 
methylprednisolone acetate that was compounded by NECC in May 2002. According to FDA's 
investigative report, the three MedWatch reports were reported by a physician and the chief 
pharmacist at a hospital in Rochester, New York and detailed adverse events that occurred in two 
patients on July 17, 2002, after they had received inrathecal injections. After speaking with 
hospital staff, FDA documented that both patients were hospitalized with meningitis-like 
symptoms, received antibiotics, and fully recovered. Hospital staff reported that the vials from 
the same lot distributed by NECC were tested at the hospital and confirmed positive for bacteria. 
When asked about actions taken by the hospital, the hospital's chief pharmacist stated that he 
"instructed his staff to remove all the methylprednisolone acetate injectable with the affected lot 
number from the hospital 49 The hospital's quality assurance supervisor stated that she 
first contacted Mr. Cadden on or about July 23, 2002, "to make him aware of the adverse 50 She informed the FDA investigator that "she does not believe the hospital] returned 
any of the vials to NECC" and that s]he believes they were all retained for FDA sampling and 
hospital investigative ' 
1d. at4. 

Id. at 6. 
46 

See id. at Attachment 1. 
1d. at9. 
1d. at7. 
U.S. FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., FDA INSPECTION REPORT OF NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING CENTER, at 4 (Feb. 10, 
2003) hereinafter, "FDA FEB. 10,2003 INSPECTION REPORT"]. 
1d. at5. 
51 Id. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 12 

On September 9, 2002, FDA's New York District Office collected a sample from the 
hospital, purportedly from the suspect lot. The sample was then sent to FDA's Northeast 
Regional Lab (NRL) for sterility and endotoxin testing. However, according to FDA's report, 
NRL "was unable to perform the sample analysis until 4 days after the compounded product's 
expiration date" and the sample collected from the hospital was from "a different lot than the 
MedWatch 52 

FDA and MBP investigators first visited NECC in relation to the adverse events 
associated with methylprednisolone acetate on October 24, 2002. FDA's investigation report 
noted that FDA last inspected NECC in April 2002 and a 483 was issued to Mr. Cadden citing 
"sterility issues pertaining to the transfilling practices for betamethasone repository 53 
The report further stated that t]he practices that were cited on the previous FDA 483 were not 
in place and therefore the correction of these items was not an issue" during the current 54 The report also highlighted the fact that since April 2002, NECC's operating space 
approximately doubled in size and it was now "planning on marketing and selling compounded 
products in all 50 U.S. states per Mr. Cadden." 

Mr. Cadden informed the FDA inspector that he had been "telephoned by an employee 
from the Rochester hospital] to notify him of the adverse reactions" and that the employee "told 
him the adverse reactions were due to 'administration errors' since the injections were 
administered 56 According to FDA's investigator, Mr. Cadden stated that the 
hospital had in fact "returned vials of the affected product to the firm and that NECC sent a 
sample of the returned product to its contract laboratory EARL] for test results, 
which were reported to the FDA investigator on August 22, 2002, came back negative for 
endotoxin content and microbial contamination. 

On December 11, 2002, FDA NRL informed FDA NWE-DO that four out of fourteen of 
the vials it sampled from the lot provided by the New York District Office tested positive for 
bacteria. On December 12, FDA and MBP investigations returned to NECC with the test results 
to "determine what his intentions would be regarding the compounded 58 Mr. Cadden 
informed them that "NECC had conducted a recall of the product in August a fact that 
he failed to share with the investigators during the October 24 inspection. When asked about 
details of the recall, Mr. Cadden stated that he had "received 500-600 vials back from customers 
as a result of the recall. He retested one (1) of these vials for sterility and endotoxin and the 
results were 60 The inspectors were understandably concerned that this was not a 

52 Id. 
Id. at 3. 

1d. at 1. 

Id. at 3. 

1d. at7. 
Id. 

1d. at8. 
Id. 

60 Id. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 13 

representative sample and explained to Mr. Cadden that "the USP contains guidance on sample 
sizes in relation to lot ' 

While at the firm on December 12 and again on December 18, 2002, inspectors collected 
samples of methylprednisolone acetate as well as betamethasone repository injection. According 
to FDA's report, t]hese compounds were chosen because they were associated with the current 
and April 2002 MedWatch reports" and are "compounded by similar methods according to Mr. 62 One FDA investigator returned to NECC on January 14 and 15, 2003. Mr. Cadden 
notified him that "if he] had any other requests or questions pertaining to any of their procedures 
and compounding activities, he] was to put his] requests or questions in 63 According 
to the investigator, Mr. Cadden brought this up when the investigator "requested the address and 
name of customers who received the suspect lot of] methylprednisolone . . . acetate] injection. 

•,,64 The investigator followed up after the inspection with a written request for the names and 
customers. Neither Mr. Cadden nor his lawyer chose to respond to the written request and still 
had not done so when, weeks later on February 10, 2003, the FDA issued NECC a 483 that 
detailed concerns observed during the 65 

On February 5, 2003, prior to FDA's issuance of the Form 483 to NECC, a meeting was 
convened with officials from FDA NWE-DO, CDER's Office of Compliance, and MBP in order 
to "review the inspectional history of the New England Compounding Center and develop a joint 
strategy for achieving safe compounding practices at the 66 The immediate concern was 
determining how to ensure the outstanding violative betamethasone was removed from 
commerce. Asserting its authority under section 50 1(b) of the FDCA, FDA discussed its ability 
to seize the adulterated lot that "is still within 67 While NECC did ultimately agree to a 
voluntary recall, officials also discussed alternative courses of action they should consider. 
CDER officials "reminded everyone that in a similar situation with a South Carolina 
compounding pharmacy, FDA issued a press release when the firm failed to take recall action in 
a timely 68 Based on a PowerPoint slide deck attached to an FDA memorandum 
describing the February 5, 2003, meeting, it is clear that FDA was discussing a fungal meningitis 
outbreak that had occurred a few months prior in South Carolina associated with 
methylprednisolone acetate compounded by a facility in Spartanburg, South Carolina, which 
ultimately resulted in two 69 
61 Id. Mr. Cadden informed investigators on December 18, 2002, in a related discussion about sample sizes, that he 
"used the recommendations of his contract laboratory (ARL)." Id. at 9. 
1d at8. 
63 Id. at 11. 
64 Id. 
65 

See id. 
66 Memorandum from Kristina Joyce, Consumer Safety Officer, New England Dist. Office, FDA & Mark 
Lookabaugh, Compliance Officer, New England Dist. Office, FDA, to Central File, February 5, 2003 Meeting with 
Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy/Division of Professional Licensure (239 Causeway Street, Boston, MA 02114), at 
1 (Feb. 24, 2003) hereinafter, "Feb. 24, 2003 FDA Memorandum"]. 
1d. at2. 
68 Id. 
69 

See Feb. 5, 2003 FDA Presentation, supra note 23, at 7-8. See also David Brown, Previous Fungal Meningitis 
Outbreak a Decade Ago Resulted in No Oversight Changes, WASH. POST (Nov. 5, 2012), 
http ://www.washingtonpost.comlnational/health-science/previous-fungal-meningitis-outbreak-a-decade-ago- 
resulted-in-no-oversight-changes/20 12/11/05/841 7d84e- 1 fa8- 11 e2-9cd5-b55c3 83 88962_story.html. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 14 

At this point, a] discussion was held to decide if NECC should be considered a 
manufacturer or a compounder," which would govern how to handle the betamethasone recall, 
but also inform ways to address "NECC's poor compounding practices that] would not 
necessarily be ultimately resolved by such an 70 It was decided that "current findings 
supported a compounding role" and that "the state would be in a better position to gain 
compliance or take regulatory action against NECC as ' It is noteworthy that after 
closing out the inspection report by issuing the 483 and convening this meeting with State 
officials, FDA's primary NECC investigator and her supervisor recommended that the "firm be 
prohibited from manufacturing until they can demonstrate ability to make product reproducibly 
and 72 They further noted that if the State was "unwilling to take action, they] ed the] firm be enjoined for GMP 73 

With respect to next steps, it was agreed that the State would ask Mr. Cadden "to appear 
before the Board of Pharmacy to answer to the current 74 MBP counsel Susan 
Manning discussed the fact that "Massachusetts pharmacy law states that pharmacists must act in 
accordance with USP recommendations" and that "this alone would imply he could be held to 
those standards by the 75 In addition, she stated that "although the state's authority does 
not include the ability to fine pharmacists, the state is able to take actions against a pharmacy's 
license, including revocation and 76 It was agreed that CDER's Office of 
Compliance "would work on documenting the deviations from USP standards for the 77 
Furthermore, among other things, the State requested from FDA examples of previous consent 
agreements and MedWatch reports regarding adverse events from products compounded by 78 

The February 5, 2003, meeting concluded by FDA "emphasizing the potential for serious 
public health consequences if NECC's compounding practices, in particular those relating to 
sterile products, are not 79 FDA acknowledged that "so long as a pharmacy's 
operations fall within the scope of the practice of pharmacy (as outlined in FDA's Compliance 
Policy Guide 460.200), FDA will generally continue to defer to state authorities for regulatory 
oversight. In such cases FDA will seek to engage cooperative efforts aimed at achieving 
regulatory compliance and ensuring the safety and quality of compounded ° 

On February 10, 2003, FDA issued a Form 483 to NECC and met with Mr. Cadden to 
review the documented observations, which included inadequate documentation to verify 
whether sterile drug products met set standards, a failure to maintain complaint files, and a lack 

70 Feb. 24, 2003 FDA Memorandum, supra note 66, at 2. 
71 Id. 
US FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., FDA ESTABLISHMENT INSPECTION REPORT OF NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING 

CENTER, at 1 (Feb. 10, 2003) hereinafter, "FDA FEB. 10, 2003 ESTABLISHMENT INSPECTION REPORT"]. 
Id. 
Feb. 24, 2003 FDA Memorandum, supra note 66, at 3. 
Id. 

76 Id. 
Id. 

78 
See id. 

Id. 
Id at 3-4. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 15 

of documentation for the reported adverse events associated with the suspect lot of 
methyiprednisolone 81 In addition, FDA noted in the corresponding inspection report that 
results from the samples investigators collected from NECC "revealed that the firm has sterility 
and potency issues with injectable steroid suspensions (betamethasone repository USP and 
methylprednisolone acetate 82 During the meeting, Mr. Cadden was informed that "at this 
point the FDA is considering NECC a pharmacy compounder and not a drug 83 

On February 26, 2003, Mr. Cadden responded in writing to the 483 detailing a variety of 
corrective measures. He stated, "We are committed to complying with applicable laws and 
regulations, to ensuring high-quality care for our patients, and to upgrading our compounding 84 This letter was supplemented on May 16, 2003, detailing additional standard 
operating procedures that were being implemented at the facility related to compounding, as well 
as product and environmental testing protocols. Mr. Cadden noted "that while we are validating 
NECC sterile injectable] preparation processes, we are not subject to (nor are we voluntarily 
subjecting ourselves to) current good manufacturing practices (cGMP5) as promulgated by FDA, 
since we are a compounding pharmacy, not a 85 

With respect to Massachusetts, the MBP did not commence any regulatory actions until 
well over a year later, on September 21, 2004, when the Board voted unanimously in favor of 
proposing a consent agreement to NECC and Mr. Cadden to resolve the aforementioned 
complaints received and violations observed. Then-Executive Director of the MBP, Charles 
Young, formally offered Mr. Cadden the consent agreement on October 4, 2004, noting in a 
letter "that if you choose not to enter into the Agreement, the Board will proceed to a formal 86 

According to the terms of the proposed consent agreement, NECC would have to agree 
that it was entered into "as a result of an adverse event complaint report investigated by the U.S. 
Food and Drug Administration" alleging that NECC "failed to comply with accepted standards 
in compounding a certain order for methyiprednisolone 87 In addition, NECC would 
agree that this conduct "constitutes professional misconduct warranting disciplinary action by the 
Board" and that NECC and Mr. Cadden would be "REPRIMANDED by the Board and 
NECC's] pharmacy registration and Mr. Cadden's] pharmacist license would be] placed on 

81 
See U.S. FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING CENTER FORM FDA 483 (Feb. 10, 2003) 

hereinafter, "FDA FEB. 10,2003 FORM 483"]. 
82 FDA FEB. 10, 2003 ESTABLISHMENT INSPECTION REPORT, supra note 72, at 1. 
83 FDA FEB. 10,2003 INSPECTION REPORT, supra note 49, at 20. 
84 Letter from Barry Cadden, Manager, New England Compounding Center, Inc., to Daryl A. Dewoskin, 
Investigator, FDA & Kristina M. Joyce, Investigator, FDA (Feb. 26, 2003) hereinafter, "Feb. 26, 2003 Cadden 
Letter"]. 
85 Letter from Barry Cadden, Manager, New England Compounding Center, Inc., to Daryl A. Dewoskin, 
Investigator, FDA & Kristina M. Joyce, Investigator, FDA (May 16, 2003) hereinafter, "May 16, 2003 Cadden 
Letter"]. 
86 Letter from Charles R. Young, Executive Dir., Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Barry J. Cadden, 
Manager of Record, New England Compounding Ctr. (Oct. 4, 2004) (attaching proposed Consent Agreement). 
87 Proposed Consent Agreement, In the Matter of New England Compounding Center Registration No. 2848 Barry 
J. Cadden, R.Ph. License No. 21239, Docket Nos. DS-03-055, PH-03-066, at 1 (Mass. Bd. of Registration in 
Pharmacy, Oct. 4, 2004) hereinafter, "MPB Proposed Consent Agreement"]. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 16 

probation for a minimum three (3) year 88 During the probationary period, among other 
things, NECC and Mr. Cadden would have been required to develop and implement various 
policies and procedures, update the Board on a quarterly basis, and keep written reports of each 
adverse event 89 Finally, the agreement would have required NECC and Mr. Cadden to 
apply in writing for termination of the probationary period, which would be granted only if all 
the conditions had been 90 

On November 11, 2004, counsel for NECC and Mr. Cadden responded to MBP's offer of 
the consent agreement. Similar to the company's prior responses to FDA, the letter, addressed to 
MBP counsel Susan Manning detailed the various corrective measures that NECC had 
implemented and noted that they "address —and in some instances exceed the proposed 
probationary ' After noting subsequent inspections that had been conducted 
"without incident," NECC's counsel stated, "While I think it is fair to say that the product of 
NECC's interaction with the Board. . . is a success story, such would not be the case if the 
resolution were to include a disciplinary sanction (including the reprimand proposed in Mr. 
Young's letter). The collateral consequences to many, if not all of NECC's 42 other state] 
licenses, would be potentially fatal to the business. Such a catastrophe is clearly not the intended 
result of the Board's proposed reprimand, nor is it warranted in this case. The Board's mandate 
is to protect the public health safety and welfare, not to punish its 92 In conclusion, the 
attorney stated, "Mr. Cadden and NECC have demonstrated their commitment to remediation, 
and are prepared to continue to do so. In that regard, NECC and Mr. Cadden will agree to all of 
the probationary terms offered in Mr. Young's letter, and will further agree to bear the burden 
and cost of monitoring and reporting their compliance. That result could be accomplished 
through a non-disciplinary resolution such as a continuance (pending a period of monitoring) or a 
'stayed 93 On November 23, 2004, the MBP reviewed the "NECC response to the] 
proposed Consent Agreement" and voted unanimously "to deny the] request to revise 94 

Despite the October 4, 2004, letter stating that if NECC and Mr. Cadden chose not to 
enter into the consent agreement, the Board would proceed to a formal hearing, there is no 
documentation of any such hearing having occurred. However, on January 6, 2006, NECC and 
Mr. Cadden did sign a consent agreement with MBP, though the terms were significantly 
different from those proposed by the Board in 2004. As set forth in the next section of this 
memorandum, NECC and the Massachusetts Board eventually agreed to only a stayed 
probationary period of one year. 

D. 2004 Inspections and the 2006 Massachusetts Board Consent Agreement with NECC 

As evidence that MBP was aware of NECC's corrective measures and disciplinary action 
was unwarranted, NECC's counsel pointed out in his November 11, 2004, response letter that 

1d. at 1-2. 
1d. at2. 
90 Id. 
91 Letter from Paul R. Cirel, Counsel to Barry Cadden & New England Compounding Ctr., to Susan Manning, 
Counsel to Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, at 1 (Nov. 11, 2004) hereinafter, "Nov. 11, 2004 Cirel Letter"]. 
92 Id. at 2-3 (internal citations omitted). 

Id. at 3 (internal citations omitted). 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, at 2 (Nov. 23, 2004). 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 17 

MBP had "inspected the facility three times since last February (twice, with a representative 
from the FDA were not to follow up on the 
underlying complaints and violations covered in the proposed consent agreement, but were to 
investigate new allegations. Further, these inspections revealed additional violations by NECC. 

On April 27, 2004, MBP had received a complaint from a Wisconsin pharmacist that 
raised concerns about the safety and legality of a product NECC was soliciting. According to the 
complaint, an NECC representative offered "a product to our plastic surgery physician that he 
calls extra strength triple anesthetic 96 During the conversation, NECC "related to the 
individual] that he would need a prescription for the product and that we could use the name of a 
staff member if we wanted to. He said 'other institutions have used a ']s 97 When 
questioned about the legality of this approach, "He assured her it was legal. He indicated that 
after we received the product it was up to us how we used it and to whom it was 98 
Separate from this complaint, MBP received "an e-mail sent to the Board by a pharmacist 
practicing in Iowa. According to the complaint.. . NECC] is advertising compounded 
prescription products which may constitute manufacturing since they purport to be used by 
multiple patients using the same prescription 99 

On September 21, 2004, MBP assigned an investigator to "conduct a joint/inspection 
with FDA. . . It is alleged that NECC] is ing] non-FDA product Trypan Blue Dye to 
be used as a capillary stain during cardiac procedures. This dye is not approved for this 100 
On September 23, 2004, investigators from MBP and FDA NWE-DO visited NECC. According 
to a January 26, 2005, memorandum drafted by the FDA investigator, "This investigation was 
mainly to obtain information about the firm's compounding practices, as they relate to the 
compounding of Trypan blue 101 When investigators arrived, Mr. Cadden 
"acknowledged that he is the most responsible person in the firm" but also introduced them to 
Gregory Conigliaro who "reported that he just joined the company about eight months ago and] 
that he is a Civil Engineer by 2 

When FDA's investigator asked Mr. Cadden whether he had Trypan blue in stock, "He 
said no, because he just compounds the drug if he receives the prescriptions for certain 3 However, when the FDA investigator was shown the clean room, he noticed a 
drawer that was identified as "Trypan Blue." He requested that Mr. Cadden open the drawer and 
when he did, the investigator noted that there were 189 vials of the product. After being 

Nov. 11, 2004 Cirel Letter, supra note 91, at 2.The letter lists three inspection dates: February 20, 2004, 
September 23, 2004, and September 28, 2004. The letter further notes that the second and third inspections included 
a "representative from the FDA." 
96 E-mail from Wisconsin Dir. of Pharmacy, to James D. Coffey, Dir., Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy (Apr. 
27, 2004, 11:33 AM). 

Id. 
98 Id. 

Mass. Div. of Prof'l Licensure Office of Investigations, Request for StaffAssignment (requested May 27, 2004). 
Mass. Div. of Prof'l Licensure Office of Investigations, Request for StaffAssignment (assigned Sept. 21, 2004). 

'°' Memorandum from Investigator, New England Dist. Office, FDA, to Acting Team Leader, Div. of New Drugs & 
Labeling Compliance, FDA, Inspection/Investigation of New England Compounding Center 697 Waverly Street 
Framingham, MA 01702, at 1 (Jan. 26, 2005) hereinafter, "Jan. 26, 2005 FDA Memorandum"]. 
102 

103 Id. at 2. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 18 

informed that it was not an approved product and that NECC should not be compounding it, Mr. 
Cadden stated that he "did not know that it is not an approved 4 He then "told one of 
the employees in the laboratory to put the vials in quarantine which he told us will be eventually 

FDA and MBP investigators returned to NECC on September 28, 2004. When asked 
about the Trypan blue, Mr. Cadden asserted that his lawyer informed him that he did not have to 
quarantine the product and that "there is no regulation which states that Compounding 
Pharmacies cannot compound FDA non-approved 106 In addition he informed the 
investigators that he dispensed the product the day after the last inspection and that he intends to 
do so "until FDA/MABP will put in writing that they cannot compound it and] dispense it and 
the reason 7 When FDA' s investigator asked Mr. Conigliaro additional questions, "he 
became indignant and] he said that he does not really have the time to sit with us and] answer 
all those Further, according to the investigator, Mr. Cadden told Mr. Conigliaro, 
"Don't answer any more 109 Prior to leaving, FDA wrote down the questions in the 
assignment and left them with Mr. Conigliaro. On October 1, 2004, Mr. Conigliaro responded to 
the questions in writing, which were shared with FDA compliance staff.UO 

On October 27, 2004, MBP's investigator sent Mr. Cadden a letter with requests for 
responses and additional information related to Trypan blue production and distribution, 
including a fill log and a copy of all prescriptions dispensed "containing more than two (2) doses 
per patient." On November 8, 2004, Mr. Cadden responded to the letter with the requested 
information, along with corrective actions taken, and stated, "In summary, we regret that the 
invalid patient names were not discovered by our pharmacy processing staff We have taken 
immediate action to insure that physicians provide, and we verify, accurate patient names in the 2 This response was shared with FDA's investigator. On January 19, 2005, the FDA 
investigator notified Mr. Cadden by phone that the district office was "closing out the inspection 
based on his response letter to MBP], indicating his plan of corrective actions, which will also 
be forwarded to 3 

While FDA closed out its inspection, MBP voted on November 23, 2004, to file a formal 
complaint based on the investigator's 4 This was the same day the Board unanimously 
voted to deny NECC's request to revise the terms of the consent agreement that had been 
proposed on October 4, 2004, covering the complaints and violations associated with 

104 

Id. 
Id at3. 
107 

109 

"°Seeid. at4. 
Letter from Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center, to Investigator, Mass. Div. 

of Health Professions Licensure Office of Investigations, at 2 (Nov. 8, 2004). 
1d. 
113 

Jan. 26, 2005 FDA Memorandum, supra note 101, at 4. 
MASS. DEP'T OF PUB. HEALTH, INVESTIGATION REPORT OF BARRY CADDEN, at 2 (Nov. 23, 2004) 

hereinafter, "MDPH Nov. 23, 2004 INVESTIGATION REPORT"]. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 19 

betamethasone repository injection and methylprednisolone acetate. It is unclear as to whether 
these decisions were related. 

Based on the new terms of the amended consent agreement, the complaint related to 
distribution of Trypan blue products without valid prescriptions was subsumed into the 
agreement. Despite the fact that the underlying matters were now more extensive, the amended 
consent agreement no longer called for a formal reprimand for professional misconduct, a three 
year probationary period, or a number of mandatory conditions that would have been required 
prior to the Board terminating the probation. The amended consent agreement included a 
probationary period of one year that was stayed pending satisfactory documentation related to an 
inspection having been conducted by Pharmacy Support, Inc. (PSI), a Board-approved evaluator, 
within 45 days of the effective date of the agreement. Further, NECC had to provide MBP with 
satisfactory documentation that PSI's recommendations were implemented and that a second 
inspection was conducted within six months. If such conditions were met, neither NECC's 
registration nor Mr. Cadden's license would be placed on 115 

On January 30, 2006, PSI sent its initial audit report to Mr. Cadden and the MBP, noting 
that the assessment was conducted on January 17 and 18. The cover letter accompanying the 
report conicuded, "Although your facility has seen significant upgrades in facility design for 
sterile compounding operation, there were numerous significant gaps identified during the 
assessment therefore, it is the opinion of the auditors that your operation needs to be upgraded 
and enhanced to be in substantial compliance with United States Pharmacopeia <795> or 

16 The letter noted that major areas of concern included the fact that good 
documentation practices were inadequate; written procedures were admittedly not routinely 
followed; procedures were not in strict accordance with USP standards; end product testing was 
often performed on "stock solutions" and not the end product that is required; and validation of 
sterilization cycles and media fills were 17 Numerous corrective actions were 
recommended, including a plan to attain compliance. 

On April 7, 2006, PSI issued the final report, which concluded that NECC] has made 
significant improvements over the past several months. They have demonstrated the ability to be 
compliant with all state and federal regulations. y] have appropriate equipment, procedures, 
basic facility design and environmental 8 However, PSI stated that, among other 
things, "it is the opinion of our firm that in order for NECC to be in substantial compliance... 
a] r]edesign of clean room 1 where sterile preparations are compounded (Floor, Ceiling, and 
HVAC)" must 119 

115 
See Consent Agreement, In the Matter of New England Compounding Center Registration No. 2848 Barry J 

Cadden, R.Ph. License No. 21239, Docket Nos. DS-03-055, PH-03-066, DS-05-040 (Mass. Bd. of Registration in 
Pharmacy, Jan. 10, 2006) hereinafter, "MPB-NECC Consent Agreement"I. 
116 Letter from Vice President for Quality Operations, Pharm. Systems, Inc., to Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of Pharmacy, 
New England Compounding Center et al., at 2 (Jan. 30, 2006) (attaching initial audit report entitled "Observations 
Requiring Corrective Action"). 
Seeid. at 1-11. 
118 PHARM. SYSTEMS, INC., FINAL REPORT: USP <795>1<797> IMPLEMENTATION —NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING 

CENTER, FRAMINGHAM, MA, at 1 (Apr. 7, 2006) hereinafter, "PSI Final NECC Report"]. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 20 

On April 12, 2006, MBP ed] NECC on the progress to date" and requested 
that the firm "advise the Board in writing regarding NECC 's intentions" with respect to the 
outstanding recommendations of PSI as well as "projected timelines for ° Mr. 
Cadden responded on April 19 as to how NECC would address PSI's remaining concerns. 
Regarding the r]edesign of clean room 1," Mr. Cadden stated, "It should first be noted that all 
sterile preparations are compounded within Class 10 Microenvironments, within 'clean room 1.' 
The room is not maintained as a certified clean room, nor was it ever our ' Mr. Cadden 
did, however, assert that the "HVAC unit in that room will be improved per PSI's suggestions. 
The work has been scheduled. . . and is expected to be completed by May 18, On May 
10, 2006, MBP requested of NECC written confirmation of HVAC work completion, along with 
two other items, which Mr. Cadden confirmed on May 22.123 The next day, the Board voted to 
advise Mr. Cadden that NECC had satisfactorily completed the terms and conditions in the 
consent agreement. This decision was communicated to Mr. Cadden on June 2, 2006.124 

Apparently the MBP never shared the PSI report with the FDA. 

E. FDA Warning Letter Relating to September 2004 Inspections 

Based on violations of the Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (FDCA) either observed during 
FDA's joint inspections of NECC in September 2004, or otherwise brought to the agency's 
attention, FDA issued a Warning Letter to the company on December 4, 2006.125 According to 

s Regulatory Procedures Manual, "Warning Letters are issued to achieve voluntary 
compliance and to establish prior notice. . . . The agency position is that Warning Letters are 
issued only for violations of regulatory significance. Significant violations are those violations 
that may lead to enforcement action if not promptly and adequately 26 

The NECC Warning Letter set forth FDA's position on the agency's jurisdiction over 
new drugs, including compounded drugs, and its enforcement policy with respect to them. The 
Warning Letter referenced Compliance Policy Guide (CPG), section 460.200 "Pharmacy 
Compounding"], which was issued by FDA on May 29, 2002, and several of the factors laid out 
in the CPG that influence FDA's enforcement policy in specific cases. The Warning Letter then 

120 Letter from George A. Cayer, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of 
Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center (Apr. 12, 2006). 
121 Letter from Barry J. Cadden, Dir. of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center, to George A. Cayer, 
President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, at 1 (Apr. 19, 2006). 
1d 
123 

See Letter from George A. Cayer, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Barry J. Cadden, Dir. of 
Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center (May 10, 2006) and Letter from Barry J. Cadden, Dir. of Pharmacy, 
New England Compounding Center, to George A. Cayer, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy (May 
22, 2006). 
124 

See Letter from George A. Cayer, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of 
Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center (June 2, 2006). 
125 

See Warning Letter (NEW-06-07W) from Gail T. Costello, Dist. Dir., New England Dist. Office, FDA, to Barry 
J. Cadden, Dir, of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center (Dec. 4, 2006) hereinafter, "FDA Warning 
Letter"]. 
US FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., REGULATORY PROCEDURES MANUAL, at § 4-1-1 (2011), available at 
http://www.fda.gov/ICECI/ComplianceManuals/RegulatoryProceduresManual/ucml 76870.htm. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 21 

discussed four primary areas of NECC activity that constituted violations of the FDCA for which 
the agency would not exercise its enforcement 27 

First, FDA noted that NECC may be compounding copies of commercially available drug 
products. Specifically, FDA highlighted Trypan blue products and the fact that "on December 
16, 2006, trypan blue ophthalmic solution was approved by FDA and it is commercially 28 In addition, according to the Warning Letter, FDA also learned that NECC "may 
be compounding 20% aminolevulinic acid solution," another commercially available, FDA- 
approved 29 FDA informed NECC that "FDA does not sanction the compounding of 
copies of FDA-approved, commercially available drugs and the agency will not exercise its 
enforcement discretion regarding the trypan blue and ALA products compounded by your 
firn-i." 30 

Second, FDA detailed how NECC had developed a standardized anesthetic drug product, 
promoted and sold it under the name "Extra Strength Triple Anesthetic Cream," and generated 
sales by giving physicians free samples. In addition to noting the public health risks associated 
with high dose local anesthetic creams, FDA stated, "These actions are not consistent with the 
traditional practice of pharmacy compounding, in which pharmacists extemporaneously 
compound reasonable quantities of drugs upon receipt of valid prescriptions from licensed 
practitioners to meet the unique medical needs of individual ' 

Third, FDA informed Mr. Cadden that it was "in receipt of a complaint alleging that 
NECC was] repackaging the approved injectable drug, Avastin, into syringes for subsequent 
promotion and sale to health The Warning Letter explained that FDA has an 
established policy, articulated in the CPG, concerning the manipulation of approved sterile drug 
products outside the scope of FDA approval and that FDA was "especially concerned with the 
potential microbial contamination associated with splitting Avastin a single-use, preservative- 
free, vial into multiple 33 

Finally, FDA stated that the agency had been informed that "although NECC] advises 
physicians that a prescription for an individually identified patient is necessary to receive 
compounded drugs, the] firm has reportedly also told physicians' offices that using a staff 
member's name on the prescription would 34 

FDA concluded the Warning Letter by informing Mr. Cadden that f]ailure to promptly 
correct these deviations may result in additional regulatory action without further notice, 
including seizure or injunction against you and your 35 The agency asked to be notified in 

127 
See FDA Warning Letter, supra note 125, at 2-5. 

128 Id. at 2. 
1d. 
1d. at 2-3. 
131 Id. at 3. 
1d. at4. 
Id. 
1d. at5. 
Id. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 22 

writing of "any steps that you will take to correct the noted violations, including an explanation 
of the steps taken to prevent the recurrence of similar 36 

On January 5, 2007, Mr. Cadden responded to FDA by noting at the outset that "the 
Warning Letter is based on an inspection of NECC that started on September 23, 2004, 
approximately twenty-eight months ago. . . FDA has not contacted us since concluding the 
inspection. Some of the letter's assertions no longer apply to NECC's 37 After 
disputing FDA's claim to having jurisdiction over compounded drugs, Mr. Cadden stated that 
"NECC does not compound copies of FDA-approved commercially available drugs, introduce 
unapproved new drugs into interstate commerce, does not need approved New Drug 
Applications] before dispensing its compounded medications, and does not process or repackage 
approved drugs in a manner that would subject us to FDA regulation. Nor are our compounded 
medications misbranded. NECC dispenses compounded medications upon the receipt of valid 38 

Without agreeing with the Warning Letter's assertions, Mr. Cadden informed FDA that, 
for business reasons, NECC stopped filling prescriptions for Trypan blue in August 2005 
(sixteen months before the Warning Letter) and for 20% aminolevulinic acid solution in May 
2006 (seven months before the Warning 139 

With respect to the topical anesthetic cream, Mr. Cadden asserted that NECC currently 
used the term "triple anesthetic cream' . . . but only as a way to literally describe the 
compounded medication as a convenience to our prescribing physicians. The term is in no way 
trademarked or ° Further, Mr. Cadden noted, "Although we do provide a very small 
quantity of medications (less than ten per month) free of charge, we do so only upon receipt of a 
valid prescription from a licensed practitioner to meet the unique medical needs of a particular 
patient.... A valid prescription does not become unlawful just because we do not charge the 
physician or patient. Should the FDA believe our position on this matter is incorrect, please ' 

Regarding the repackaging of Avastin, Mr. Cadden stated that it did not constitute 
manufacturing, that NECC only did so "upon receipt of a valid, patient-specific prescription," 
and that a]ll aspects of our sterile compounding and repacking operations were recently 
reviewed by an independent expert, who confirmed that NECC is in compliance with USP 
standards] ,,142 

Lastly, in response to FDA's assertion that NECC reportedly told physicians that the 
company would fill prescription written in the name of a staff member, Mr. Cadden stated, "This 

1d. 
137 Letter from Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center, to Compliance Officer, New 
England Dist. Office, FDA et al,, at 1 (Jan. 5, 2007). 
1d. at3. 
139 

See id. at 3. 
1d. at4. 
141 Id. at 4-5. Id at5. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 23 

allegation contradicts all of our standard operating procedures. NECC has not made such a 
representation to anyone, and has no idea how or why FDA arrived at this 43 

FDA did not respond to Mr. Cadden's letter until almost two years later, on October 31, 
2008. Tn its reply, the agency d] and d] for the significant delay in this 44 Again, FDA presented an extensive summary of its authority over 
compounded drugs and factors the agency would consider in determining whether to exercise 
enforcement discretion. FDA accepted the firm's assertions with respect to the discontinued 
products; however, NEC C's letter did not alleviate 's concerns regarding the manner in 
which the company was promoting its products and the manipulation of sterile 45 

FDA concluded by stating, "We agree that the length of intervening period was unusual. 
This in no way diminishes our serious concerns about your firm's operation. Your firm must 
promptly correct the violations noted in the December 4, 2006, Warning Letter, and establish 
procedures to assure that such violations do not occur. Its failure to do so may result in 
enforcement action including seizure of the firm's products and/or an injunction against the firm 
and its principals. In a future inspection, we will confirm the commitments that you made in 
your response. We also will verify that your firm's compounding practices are consistent with 
the policy articulated in the CPG, and that your firm's operation is not otherwise at odds with the 
conditions under which the agency exercises enforcement discretion towards pharmacy 46 This letter, which was dated October 31, 2008 and sent in follow-up to an 
inspection that occurred in September 2004, is the last documented correspondence between 
FDA and NECC until the recent outbreak. 

F. Recent Colorado Complaints Related to NECC and Corresponding Actions 

With respect to additional correspondence between NECC and State authorities, the next 
interaction between the parties was a satisfactory MBP inspection conducted on May 24, 2011, 
in connection with the renovation and expansion of NECC's Framingham facility. This was the 
last inspection of NECC's facility prior to the meningitis outbreak. 

On July 26, 2012, however, an inspector for the Colorado Board of Pharmacy notified 
MBP Director James Coffey that NECC had violated the terms of a Cease and Desist Order the 
State had issued the company on April 15, 2011, based on NECC's distribution of"a stock 
compounded prescription drug. . . to a prescription drug outlet in the State of Mr. 
Coffey was informed that, during the course of a routine hospital pharmacy inspection in 
Colorado on July 17, 2012, the inspector observed a number of invoices and products from 
NECC. After this conversation, on July 26, 2012, the Colorado inspector emailed Mr. Coffey a 
copy of "the Special Report submitted to the Chief Inspector for the Pharmacy Board in 

Id. at 6. 
Letter from Compliance Officer, New England Dist. Office, FDA, to Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of Pharmacy, New 

England Compounding Center, at 1 (Oct. 31, 2008). 
See id. at 2-4. 

1d. at4. 
147 

See Cease and Desist Order, In the Matter of the Unauthorized and Unlawful Distribution of Prescription Drugs 
and/or Compounded Prescription Drugs in Colorado by New England Compounding Center, Inc., Case No. 2011- 
3973 (Cob. State Bd. of Pharmacy, Apr. 15, 2011). 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 24 

Colorado concerning the receipt of non-patient specific compounded products into 148 
The inspector asked Mr. Coffey for "any information that the Massachusetts Board could provide 
concerning if this practice is allowed under Massachusetts pharmacy 149 Mr. Coffey 
responded on July 27, "The Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy will respond as soon as possible 
following a thorough review and analysis of the 50 Mr. Coffey then forwarded his 
correspondence with the Colorado inspector, along with the report, to MBP counsel Susan 
Manning and others in the MDPH, including several past NECC 

in the Colorado report is email correspondence from May 2011 between FDA's 
Denver and New England District Offices relating to NECC's "illegal distribution of 
compounded drugs to hospitals in the Denver metropolitan 152 Several FDA employees 
were on this email chain, including at least one NWE-DO compliance officer involved in past 
NECC actions. Based on the Committee's investigation, it appears that FDA did not contact the 
MBP about the Colorado Board's concerns in May 2011 or any time thereafter, as Mr. Coffey 
was first informed by the Colorado inspector on July 26, 2012. 

MDPH officials informed Committee staff that they first became aware of this complaint 
from Colorado while reviewing responsive documents pursuant to the Committee's 
investigation. On November 6, 2012, Dr. Lauren Smith, MDPH Interim Commissioner, issued a 
statement that Mr. Coffey had been terminated and Susan Manning had been placed on 
administrative leave. According to Dr. Smith, "The director of the Board is responsible for 
ordering investigations. Mr. Coffey failed to order an investigation or take any other action on 
the Colorado complaint. It is incomprehensible that Mr. Coffey and Ms. Manning did not act on 
the Colorado complaint given NECC's past, and their responsibility to investigate complaints. 
Following the outbreak, staff also failed to disclose the existence of Colorado's complaint to 
leadership at 53 Dr. Smith stated that t]here is no evidence at this time that staff 
informed Board of Pharmacy] members about the Colorado issues. We continue to interview all 
Board members as part of our investigation into their handling of this situation and will not 
hesitate to make further changes and personnel actions if we deem them to be 54 
However, it has come to the Committee's attention that as of November 8, 2012, the current 
President of the Board has yet to be interviewed. 

148 E-mail from Pharmacy Inspector, Cob. State Bd. of Pharmacy, to James D. Coffey, Dir., Mass. Bd. of 
Registration in Pharmacy (July 26, 2012, 3:06 PM). 
1d. 
150 E-mail from James D. Coffey, Dir., Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Pharmacy Inspector, Cob. State 
Bd. of Pharmacy (July 27, 2012, 7:33 AM). 
151 

See E-mail from James D. Coffey, Dir., Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Susan Manning, Counsel to 
Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy et al. (July 27, 2012, 7:34 AM) (forwarding Colorado "Special Report"). 
152 E-mail from Senior Case Review Expert, Denver Dist. Office, FDA, to Supervising Consumer Safety Officer, 
New England Dist. Office, FDA et a!. (May 10, 2011, 4:19 PM). 
153 Press Release, Mass. Dep't of Pub. Health, Statement of Interim Commissioner Dr. Lauren Smith on NECC 
Investigation (Nov. 7, 2012), available at http://www.mass.gov/eohhs/docs/dph/quality/boards/pharmacy/1 21107- 
statement-from-lauren-smith.pdf. 
1d. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 25 

IV. ISSUES 

The following issues will be explored at the hearing: 

• Both State and Federal inspectors documented a number of deficiencies and violations at 
NECC since as early as 2002, many of which are similar to those at issue in the ongoing 
meningitis investigation. Were the FDA's and the Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy's 
enforcement actions appropriate? 

• Why didn't FDA pursue any enforcement actions against the NECC despite having 
emphasized in 2003 the potential for serious public health consequences if the company's 
compounding practices, in particular those relating to sterile products, were not 
improved? 

• Prior to this outbreak, the Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy had investigated at least 
twelve separate complaints relating to NECC and its management. While many of these 
complaints covered NECC's sales and marketing tactics, several were associated with 
serious adverse events and uncovered deficiencies with NECC's compounding 
operations. How was NECC able to maintain its pharmacy license despite repeated 
violations? 

• What did State and Federal authorities do to confirm that sufficient corrective measures 
were taken after these inspections? How did they communicate with each other to ensure 
such responses were adequate to protect the public health? 

V. STAFF CONTACTS 

If you have any questions regarding this hearing, please contact Karen Christian or John 
Stone with the Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations at (202) 225-2927. 



MASSACHUSETTS BOARD OF REGISTRATION IN PHARMACY 

Sterile Compounding Pharmacy Information Sheet 

Massachusetts pharmacies that are licensed by the Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy (Board) and 
engage in the compounding of sterile products that have completed and submitted a Sterile Compounding 
Pharmacy Attestation of Compliance are required to complete this Information Sheet and return it with the 
requested documents to the Board by 12 Noon on Friday, November 9, 2012. 

FAILURE of any Massachusetts pharmacy that performs sterile compounding to complete and return this 
Information Sheet and other requested information to the Board by 12 Noon on Friday, NOVEMBER 9, 2012 will be 
a ground for discipline of the pharmacy license by the Board as a violation of 247 CMR 10.03(q). 

Please direct any questions regarding this request to 

Name of Massachusetts Pharmacy 
Street Address 
City/Town Zip Code 
Tel. No. Fax No. 

Name of Manager of Record Lic. No. PH____________ 
Signature___________________________________________________ Date_________________ 
E-mail 

1. Hours of operation: Weekdays: Weekends: 

2. Staffing: 

Total No. Pharmacy Staff: Pharmacists: Technicians: Interns:______ 

No. staff preparing sterile products: Pharmacists:_______ Technicians:______ Interns: 

3. Job descriptions for individuals involved with compounding of sterile products (attach) 

4. Competency training documents (attach) 

5. Size of and number of clean rooms: 

6. Number of laminar flow hoods: 

7. List all non-sterile active pharmaceutical ingredients (API) used for sterile compounding: 

8. Describe methods of sterilizing (e.g., filtration, autoclave): - 

9. Describe process of environmental sampling: 

10. Describe process to determine Beyond-Use-Dating (BUD): 

11. List of sterile products compounded (attach) 

Name of Pharmacy: 



12. List of customers (attach) 

I, 

_________________________________ 

(Print Name) ATTEST, under the pains and penalties of perjury, to the 
truthfulness of the information provided herein. 

Signature: Date:___________________ 

Please direct any questions regarding this Pharmacy Information Sheet to 

Please FAX (617 973 0980) OR SCAN a completed and signed 
Information Sheet and other requested information to the Massachusetts Board of Registration Pharmacy 
BY 12 NOON ON FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2012. Please mail an original signed form AND requested 
information to the Board at the address below: 

Board of Registration in Pharmacy 
ATTN: Sterile Compounding Pharmacy Information Sheet 
239 Causeway Street, th floor 
Boston, MA 02114 

Name of Pharmacy: 



IThri&t Pliarniacy Association 
Supporting Florida Pharmacy Since 1887 

November 13, 2012 

Mr. Mark Whitten 
Executive Director 
Florida Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald cypress Way, C-04 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

Re: Pharmacists' Commitment to Patient Safety and Compounding Quality 

Dear Mr. Whitten: 

As a state organization representing pharmacy practitioners in all settings, we offer our 
deepest sympathy and condolences to patients and families affected by the fungal 
meningitis outbreak due to contaminated injectable products. The pharmacy profession 
is dedicated to ensuring patient safety and access to quality medications that meet 
patients' needs. Based on our understanding of this tragedy, the entity involved was not 
engaged in traditional compounding practices specific to particular patients or in-office 
use by a physician that is integral to all aspects of pharmacy practice, but was possibly 
engaged in unregulated, unlicensed drug manufacturing. 

Pharmacists compound medications in response to a prescription from a physician or 
other legally-authorized prescriber to meet patient-specific needs. Under Florida law, 
patients may receive compounded medications when they have a need for a 
customized medication, when a drug shortage or product discontinuation occurs, when 
the needed strength or dosage form is not available from a manufacturer, or when an 
allergen-free version of a medication is needed. Pharmacists provide these 
compounded products to patients under a patient-specific prescription or for in-office 
use by a prescribing practitioner. Pharmacists also compound prescriptions for 
veterinary needs. 

It is not uncommon for a patient who needs a particular medication yet is unable to 
swallow a solid oral dosage form due to the insertion of a nasogastric tube. In these 
cases and many others similar to this there is a need for a compounded form of the 
medication prescribed. Pharmacists can prepare a liquid version of that drug to allow 
for insertion into the tube. This is considered basic compounding. 

We believe that patients must continue to have access to high quality compounded 
medications that are not commercially available from a manufacturer. Pharmacists 
working in all practice settings such as hospitals and health systems, community 
pharmacies, long-term care and assisted-living settings, and even our nation's 
uniformed services must work to meet defined quality standards and to comply with 
state boards of pharmacy regulations in pharmacy sterile and nonsterile compounding 



practices. Importantly, all practice settings and health professionals providing sterile 
compounding should follow defined quality standards. Many of these standards can be 
found published on the Pharmacy Compounding Accreditation Board (PCAB) web site. 
Pharmacies may also be held to accreditation and certification requirements when 
compounding sterile products to further assure quality and compliance. The Florida 
Pharmacy Association at its August 2006 Executive Committee supports the voluntary 
participation of Florida providers to become accredited with PCAB. 

The Florida Pharmacy Association as well as our national pharmacy organizations and 
our colleague state pharmacy associations throughout the country are committed to 
working with Congress; state legislatures; state boards of pharmacy regulating the 
practice of pharmacy; and the Department of Business and Professional Regulation and 
the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA), which regulates pharmaceutical 
manufacturers and distributors, on compounding issues. In addition, we will collaborate 
with physicians, other prescribers, and other key stakeholders to prevent further 
tragedy. 

Florida has one of the most comprehensive regulatory structures governing the practice 
of pharmacy in our country. Florida's rules on sterile compounding clearly prohibit the 
activities leading to the New England tragedy and the Florida Board of Pharmacy holds 
the legal authority to take appropriate action to suspend or revoke the non-resident 
pharmacy permit of NECC. The Florida Pharmacy Association believes Florida should 
hold nonresident pharmacies, such as NECC, to the stringent compliance standards 
established under current Florida compounding law for all Florida-permitted pharmacies. 
The Florida Pharmacy Association further urges the Board to consider recommending 
legislative changes that would require non-resident pharmacy permit holders to have a 
Florida licensed pharmacist manager acting in nonresident pharmacies as is required by 
a number of other states, particular if such out-of-state pharmacy is dispensing 
compounded medications into our State. The pedigree laws that apply to in-state 
permitted pharmacies must more clearly apply to non-resident pharmacy permit holders. 
If a non-resident pharmacy permit holder, such as NECC, is engaged in the 
manufacturing of drugs, the Board of Pharmacy must have the clear authority and the 
resources to take action against such non-resident pharmacy's permit and the 
Department of Business and Regulation must be clearly authorized to require a full 
prescription drug pedigree or any medications dispensed in this state, regardless of 
where the dispensing pharmacy is located. 

Finally, the FPA recommends that the Department of Health invest in resources to train 
our state's inspection team on the complexities of compounding services. We 
understand that resources of the Department are strained with the state struggling to 
balance its budget. Practitioner licensing fees that have in recent years been diverted 
from Medical Quality Assurance trust funds must be restored and used to address 
enforcement, compliance and quality issues. The lack of enforcement in the Northeast 
has shown us that adequate enforcement resources are essential to patient safety. 

We are prepared to be a resource for policymakers and stakeholders to work toward 
identification of a clear delineation between drug manufacturing and traditional 
pharmacy compounding, to ensure that state pharmacy boards, DBPR and the FDA 
have the resources necessary for effective enforcement in areas within their jurisdiction, 



and to find an appropriate, balanced approach to assure public safety and continued 
access to compounded medications. 

The Florida Pharmacy Association is the oldest and largest organization representing 
the profession of pharmacy in Florida. The members include pharmacists with expertise 
in community, institutional, long term care, consulting, managed care, nuclear, 
compounding, infusion therapy, academic and governmental service. The Association 
has networked with over 30 local invited and affiliated pharmacy organizations with 
outreach to most Florida licensed pharmacists. The FPA has advocated for and 
implemented a number of quality improvement and pharmacist patient care initiatives in 
this state and has served the profession since 1887. 

Florida Pharmacy Association is the professional society representing Florida 
pharmacists, united to improve public health and patient care, enhance professional 
development and advocate for the interest of the profession. The Association is 
organized to preserve and advance the practice of pharmacy and to serve the 
professional needs of all pharmacists, pharmacy students, and pharmacy technicians. 

We thank you for this opportunity to allow us to comment on this issue and on behalf of 
the leadership and members of the FPA, I am available for any questions that you may 
have. 

With kindest regards, 

Michael A. Jackson, BPharm 
Executive Vice President and CEO 

Cc: FPA Board of Directors 



United States Senate 
HEALTH, EDUCATION, LABOR, AND PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

The New England Compounding Center and 
the Meningitis Outbreak of 2012: A Failure 

to Address Risk to the Public Health 

Committee Staff Report 

November 15, 2012 



On September 26, 2012, as a result of the rapid work of the Tennessee Department of 
Public Health and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDCP), an outbreak of an 
unusual strain of fungal meningitis was identified. Preservative free methylprednisolone acetate 
(MPA), administered via spinal injection, was quickly identified as a likely source of the 
infections. The MPA was traced back to a compounding pharmacy in Framingham 
Massachusetts, the New England Compounding Pharmacy Inc., doing business as the New 
England Compounding Center (NECC). The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) 
subsequently determined that three separate lots of MPA, totaling over 17,000 doses produced by 
NECC between May 21, 2012 and August 10, 2012, were contaminated with the exserohilum 
rostratum fungus.' 

To date, NECC's failure to produce a sterile and safe product has led to more than 30 
deaths and over 450 serious illnesses requiring treatment with high risk anti-fungal medications. 
The efforts of the CDCP and the Tennessee Department of Public Health allowed public health 
officials in 23 states to rapidly track and begin monitoring the approximately 14,000 possible 
recipients of the contaminated drug. But thousands of people around the country continue to 
wait and see whether they will develop meningitis, joint infections, spinal abscesses, or 
arachnoiditis. Those treated will face the risk of kidney and liver damage from the powerful 
anti-fungal drugs. 

While the quick work of the public health community has led to early identification and 
treatment of many cases of meningitis, and reduced the fatalities resulting from the 
administration of the contaminated MPA, the Committee's investigation demonstrates that this 
crisis should have, and could have, been avoided entirely. 

Since its creation in 1998, inspections of NECC by state, federal, and independent 
investigators have identified and documented profound deficiencies in the company's production 
of sterile drugs. The company has also been cited on multiple occasions for improper use of 
prescription blanks to solicit orders and failure to comply with state regulations requiring patient- 
specific prescriptions for compounded drugs. 

Moreover, the same drug at issue in the current outbreak, NECC-produced MPA, had 
previously been a suspected cause of at least two cases with bacterial meningitis-like symptoms. 
These reports triggered an FDA inspection of the facility ten years prior to the current outbreak, 
in August 2002. 

While the FDA sampling of NECC-produced MPA proved sterile at the time, other MPA 
samples were found to contain bacteria." As an FDA employee stated in a power point 
presentation to the Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy (Board) at the time, 
"Sterilization techniques and aseptic practices continue to raise questions, despite no positive 
(nonsterile) results from latest samples. Absence of evidence is not evidence of 1 
'Testing of the third lot is ongoing. 
"An outbreak of fungal meningitis caused by MPA compounded by a South Carolina pharmacy also 
occurred in mid-2002. 

1 



Four years later in 2006, an independent evaluator reported to NECC manager and co- 
owner Barry Cadden that major areas of concern included "inadequate and incomplete 
documentation," that "end product testing is often performed on 'stock solutions' and not the end 
product that is required," "process controls including validation of sterilization cycles and media 
fills are inadequate," and "in many cases the procedures are not in strict accordance with USP 
795/797" as required by Massachusetts state 2 

In view of these repeated concerns with regard to the ability of NECC to safely produce 
compound drugs, it is difficult to understand why definitive action was never taken to either 
revoke its license or, at a minimum, closely monitor the company's operations. Instead, the 
company was allowed to grow and expand operations, ultimately holding licenses to ship drugs 
to at least 45 states. The same owners were subsequently permitted to open the far larger 
Ameridose, which supplied compounded drugs to hospitals around the country. Also, that 
company now has been found to lack adequate procedures to ensure that the compounds 
produced are safe, uniform or sterile. 

This report is based on information obtained in the course of the Committee's 
investigation. It is intended to recount the known history of NECC, its related companies and 
their interactions with federal and state regulators as of November 15, 2012 to better understand 
the events leading to the current public health crisis. 

The New Compounding Company 

NECC was created in 1998 by the Conigliaro family. Three Conigliaro siblings and their 
spouses own the company: Douglas and Carla Conigliaro; Barry Cadden and Lisa Conigliaro 
Cadden; and Gregory Conigliaro. Ownership and management of the company have remained 
essentially unchanged since 1998. Pharmacists Barry Cadden and Lisa Conigliaro Cadden own 
25 percent of the company, Carla Conigliaro owns 65 percent, and Gregory Conigliaro owns 10 
percent. Gregory Conigliaro also owns a neighboring recycling business. Barry Cadden was in 
charge of operations and significant amounts of the actual compounding at NECC during the 
entire period of operations. The three siblings and spouses also own Ameridose and Alaunus, 
two companies created in 2006, in similar proportions. 

NECC was granted a special pharmacy license by the Board in June 1998. That license 
allowed the company to produce compounded pharmaceutical products without operating a full- 
service pharmacy, but still subject to the state requirement that the company to have an 
individual patient prescription for each dose compounded. Massachusetts also adopted United 
States Pharmacopeia Standard <797>, which sets forth standards for compounding pharmacies 
including requirements for clean facilities, specific training for operators, and air quality 3 

The first enforcement action against NECC began just 10 months after issuance of the 
license. In April of 1999, the Board filed a complaint against NECC for including blank 
prescriptions in solicitations to practitioners, a practice that violated state law. Six months later, 
in November of 1999, the Board resolved the complaint by issuing a warning to NECC in a 
private non-disciplinary advisory 4 

2 



In June 2001, the Idaho Board of Pharmacy complained to the Massachusetts Board that 
NECC was, among other things, including unapproved prescription forms in its solicitations to 
Idaho practitioners. Documents are unclear regarding whether the Board took formal action on 
this complaint. In fact, as detailed below, it appears that the Board has a dysfunctional system 
for logging incoming complaints and evaluating whether a complaint warrants assignment to an 5 Documents received by the Committee make clear, however, that NECC was 
investigated or warned for prescription-related concerns on at least 5 other occasions in the 
following 10 years. 

Adverse Events 

To the Committee's knowledge, the first time the safety of NECC's products was called 
into question was in early 2002. In March 2002, a prescribing doctor reported to the FDA that as 
many as five patients became ill following an epidural injection of NECC-produced 
betamethasone 6 He reported the illnesses to the FDA, alerted NECC about the 
issue, and returned unused doses to NECC without taking 7 However, when the FDA 
arrived to inspect NECC on April 9, 2002, there were no records for the drugs in 8 

The FDA, joined for part of the inspection by the Board, spent three days inspecting 
NECC's facilities. When searching NECC's database, the FDA found a "date made" entry for 
the lot-number of drugs cited in the report but noted that "no associated records could be 9 The FDA inspection report recounts that Barry Cadden asserted that the lot had 
never been produced but could provide no documentation that the lot had been 10 
Additionally, although the FDA contacted the physician making the report and confirmed he had 
returned the unused portion to NECC, FDA inspectors could find no record of the 11 

In the course of the inspection, FDA inspectors were told by Bany Cadden that 
approximately 4 lots of product produced between March and April 2002 had tested positive for 
endotoxin and were awaiting 12 FDA inspectors documented that NECC had sampled 
betamethasone repositories immediately after sterilization in the autoclave, and then left the 
product for up to 7 to 10 days before placing it in individual 13 FDA inspectors reported an 
additional 8 areas of concern including a lack of procedures to ensure the operation of the 
autoclave, use of expired products, and inaccurate beyond use (i.e. expiration) " 

In August of 2002, another series of adverse events were reported to the 15 These 
reports indicated that at least 2 patients were hospitalized for meningitis-like symptoms, and that 
the suspected sources of the infections were epidural injections of NECC-produced MPA, the 
same drug at issue in the current 16 

The FDA, joined for part of the inspection by the Board, returned to NECC for a series of 
six days of inspections between October 2002 and February 2003. At that time Barry Cadden 
indicated to FDA inspectors that NECC was in the process of drastically expanding its 
operations. Since the FDA's prior inspection, NECC had doubled its square footage and hired 

Two days after the inspections, on April 18, 2002, the Nevada Board of Pharmacy submitted a 
complaint to the Board, alleging that NECC was selling non-FDA approved products in the state. It is 
unclear if the Board took any action as a result of this complaint. 

3 



additional staff. Further, NECC ' s manager stated his intent to expand sales to all 50 states, up 
from the 13 states in which it was then 17 

FDA tested unused vials of the MPA collected from the location of the adverse event 
report, and found that 5 of the 16 vials were contaminated with bacteria. The FDA also tested 
other vials obtained during inspections of NECC and found problems with super potent MPA 
and sub-potent betamethasone 18 Investigators again documented the use of 
procedures insufficient to ensure safe compounding. Those concerns included a "lack of 
documentation to verify that the autoclave itself is maintained and calibrated to perform its 
intended function," as well as a concern regarding a lack of safe procedures to ensure that "the 
transfer of bulk drug product and equipment from the autoclave.., to another room ... is not 
introducing contamination into the finished 19 The FDA's inspectors concluded, 
"Sample results revealed that the firm has sterility and potency issues with injectable steroid 
suspensions (betamethasone repository USP and methylprednisolone acetate ° 

In April 2002, prior to these inspections, the United States Supreme Court in Thompson 
v. Western States Medical Center ruled that section 503A of the Food Drug and Cosmetics Act 
included an impermissible restriction on commercial speech. The Supreme Court did not address 
provisions that clarified FDA's authority to regulate certain compound pharmacies, which the 
lower court held was not severable from the unconstitutional commercial speech restrictions. 
While NECC would likely have been subject to FDA regulation pursuant to section 503A of the 
Food Drug and Cosmetics Act, FDA's authority with regard to NECC under 503A was unclear 
after Western States, although FDA's general authority against unapproved new drugs, 
misbranded, or adulterated product was not in dispute. Despite the ambiguity regarding 503A, in 
May 2002 the FDA issued guidance which reasserted its authority to inspect compounding 
pharmacies and provided a non-exhaustive list of factors that the agency would consider in 
determining whether to take enforcement action when the scope and nature of a 
activities raise the kind of concerns ordinarily associated with drug manufacturing. 

In this case, FDA took the position that the Board was better situated to take action 
against NECC. An FDA memo documenting a February 5, 2003, meeting between the FDA and 
the staff of the Board states that "a discussion was held to determine if NECC should be 
considered a manufacturer or a compounder" and that "current findings supported a 
compounding 21 The memo concludes: 

Mr. Elder from FDA] concluded the meeting by summarizing the discussions and 
emphasizing the potential for serious public health consequences 's 
compounding practices, in particular those relating to sterile products are not 
improved. The point was made that so long as a pharmacy's operations fall within the 
scope of the practice of pharmacy. . .FDA will generally defer to state authorities for 
regulatory oversight. In such cases FDA will seek to engage cooperative efforts aimed at 
achieving regulatory compliance and ensuring the safety and quality of compounded 22 
The FDA then officially stated in the NECC Inspection Report issued February 10, 2003, 

R]eferral to Massachusetts State Board of Pharmacy. Recommend firm be prohibited from 
manufacturing until they can demonstrate ability to make product reproducibly and dependably. 

4 



If state is unwilling to take action, recommend firm be enjoined for Good Manufacturing 
Practices] 23 

Despite the formal recommendation that the state take action, it is unclear whether the 
Board took any additional action for the next year." It also does not appear that FDA conducted 
any follow-up to verify whether Massachusetts' response was sufficient to protect public health 
and safety. 

Finally, on February 20, 2004, the Board staff conducted a compliance inspection and 
noted that NECC had taken corrective actions for the safety concerns identified in 2002 and 
2003.24 Nonetheless, the Board's staff recommended a public reprimand of NECC for its prior 25 

On September 21, 2004, more than two years after the first reported cases of meningitis 
and other adverse events, and apparently acting on the staff recommendation, the Board voted to 
seek a public censure and probation for NECC's misconduct leading to the As was 
the Board's custom, they sent a consent decree to NECC that, if agreed to, would impose the 
relevant discipline and monitoring requirements for a three-year 27 The Board's staff 
transmitted its proposed consent decree to NECC on October 4, 2004.28 

NECC did not agree to the proposed consent decree. NECC wrote to the Board asking it 
to instead consider non-public disciplinary action, to better protect NECC's business 29 
Counsel for NECC wrote: "once disclosed, the reprimand will surely result in 
inquiries/investigations in other] jurisdictions. Regardless of the derivative actions taken, the 
attendant legal and administrative costs will be 30 The Board voted in November of 
2004 to decline NECC's request for modifications to the consent 31 Following that action 
by the Board, Committee interviews with Board staff suggest that the consent decree was 
referred for formal action to prosecuting attorneys within the Massachusetts Department of 
Public 32 

For over a year, the record shows no formal order was filed and no hearing was held. 
Instead, it appears that attorneys for the Department of Public Health negotiated a modified 
consent agreement approved by the Board with an effective date of January 10, The 
revised consent decree required that NECC submit to two inspections over a six-month period by 
a third-party evaluator, as well as a series of written assurances that recommended improvements 
had been made, in exchange for a suspended period of non-public 34 The agreement 

'V FDA's investigation report also notes that Mr. Cadden, the manager of NECC, was serving on a 
committee for the state of Massachusetts, created to revise state regulations controlling compounding 
pharmacies. (FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, R. Ph, Owner and 
Director of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., February 10, 2003.) The 
committee's work, however, became moot after the release of USP 797, which then was adopted by 
Massachusetts. 247 CMR 9.0 1(3) 
V Between the Board staff report recommending censure and the Board vote to issue the consent decree, 
pharmacist Sophia Pasedis was appointed to the eleven-member Board. Ms. Pasedis appears to have been 
an employee of NECC in some capacity at the time of her appointment, and thus recused herself from the 
Board consideration of the consent decree. Ms. Pasedis is currently a manager of the Conigliaros' other 
drug company, Ameridose. 

5 



was referred to as "non-disciplinary" and was "not reported to the National Association of State 
Boards of Pharmacy or other outside report 35 

Thus, almost four years after the two series of adverse events, including hospitalizations, 
likely caused by MPA, and three years after the FDA had stressed "the potential for serious 
public health consequences if NECC's compounding practices, in particular those relating to 
specific sterile products are not 36 the Board merely required NECC to hire an outside 
monitor, and made no mention of suspension or revocation of NECC's license. 

PSI Monitoring 

Pursuant to the revised consent decree, a third-party auditor, Pharmacy Support, Inc. 
(PSI) was selected to evaluate NECC's compliance with United States Pharmacopeia Standard 
797, which the Board had recently adopted as the governing standard for 37 PSI 
inspected NECC in January 2006 and noted multiple concerns, including sterility concerns. 
Among them, PSI noted a range of fundamental problems, including: 

• NECC had "no requirements for donning proper attire or hand washing" when 
compounding medicines; 

• "Mixing instructions are not specific and do not always indicate time and temperature;" 
• "No quality control procedures are defined;" 
• "Non-sterile 70% IPA is used to sanitize;" 
• "Beard covers not worn;" 
• "Hairnets and beard covers were not worn properly;" 
• "Environmental monitoring procedures are inadequate;" 
• "Calibrations are not performed properly;" 
• "Floors in the unclassified/hybrid buffer area have not been sanitized in 3 months of use;" 
• Beyond use dates] assigned incorrectly;" 
• "There are no written procedures for receipt, storage, and accountability of controlled 

substances;" 
• Standard Operating Procedures] are inadequate or not followed;" 
• "Complaint forms were not available for some complaints logged in the complaint log;" 
• "Most sections of complaint forms are not complete;" 
• "Lot numbers are not assigned appropriately;" 
• "4 out of 8 gloves observed had holes while CSP was compounded;" and 
• Dry heat "sterilization equipment has not been 38 

NECC took significant corrective measures, including replacing deficient equipment, 
conducting several training sessions for staff, and adopting a wide range of new standard 
operating 39 PSI submitted a final report on April 7, 2006, stating that NECC was 
largely compliant with pharmaceutical In April and May, the Board received two 

Vi Six days later, at the end of an 8-week jury trial and three-year indictment, both PSI's CEO and Chief 
Compliance Officer were criminally convicted on 19 counts including fraud, mail fraud, and a violation 
of the Food and Drug Control Act. US v. Caputo, No. 03 CR 0126 (N.D. Ill. Oct 16, 2003). It is unclear 
how PSI was selected as the Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy has been unable to or produce 
documents discussing the selection of PSI in detail. Documents do show that PSI submitted a proposal to 

6 



more cursory letters from NECC assuring compliance with its remaining open 41 On June 
2, 2006, the Board informed NECC that it had fulfilled the requirements of its consent decree 
and that it considered the matter 42 

Additional NECC Complaints 

At the time the Board acted to send the initial consent decree to NECC, it also acted to 
resolve three additional complaints against NECC in September Despite ongoing 
investigations relating to serious adverse events, the Board issued three non-disciplinary private 
advisory letters to NECC resolving complaints submitted during the prior two years from 
practitioners in South Dakota, Texas, and 44 While the advisory letters fail to spell 
out the specifics of the complaints, and the original complaints have not been reviewed by the 
Committee to date, it appears that NECC may have been soliciting bulk orders rather than 
patient-specific prescriptions, conduct that NECC was initially reprimanded for in 1999. A 
Board inspection report from around that time specifically notes that NECC "continues to reduce 
to writing orders on bulk purchase order forms and not on the approved prescription blanks. An 
issue previously addressed with Mr. 45 

Additionally, in April 2004, five months before issuance of the advisory letters, the Board 
received a new complaint from a practitioner regarding the safety of NECC compounded triple 
anesthetic cream. The complaint states "My second concern is that redacted] related to the 
purchasing technician that he would need a prescription for the product and that we could use the 
name of a staff member if we wanted to. He said 'other' institutions have used a nurses 
name. . . .He assured her that it was legal. He indicated that after we received the product it was 
up to us how we used it and whom it was administered 46 It appears that this complaint 
triggered a Board inspection on November 2004. When questioned about the use of false names, 
Cadden responded "a review of the same documentation provided to you does show what would 
appear to be incorrect or repetitive names being provided by several of our prescribing 47 Yet the Board staff again recommended issuance of yet another non-disciplinary 
advisory letter dismissing this complaint. 

On November 7, 2012, Department of Public Health officials informed the Committee 
that a July 2012 complaint against NECC, from the Colorado Board, for producing drugs in the 
absence of a patient-specific prescription had been discovered in the email of the Board's 
Executive Director. The complaint, which was received while the contaminated lots of MPA 
were still being produced by NECC, provided clear photographic evidence that NECC was 
shipping products in the absence of patient-specific 48 Further, Colorado had issued 
a cease and desist order to NECC in 2011 regarding this 49 Board staff never acted on 
the July 2012 complaint, and it is unclear that the Board itself was aware of the 

While Massachusetts state law requires that a compounding pharmacy possess a patient- 
specific prescription before preparing a compound drug, it appears that NECC has been 

the Massachusetts Board and the prosecutor negotiating the consent agreement provided contact 
information to NECC's counsel. i The Board also informed the Committee that it had terminated the Executive Director and placed the 
Board's Counsel on administrative leave as a result of this discovery. 

7 



consistently preparing and shipping batch products either in the absence of a prescription or to 
false prescription recipients since 1998. No regulatory entity appears to have undertaken a 
serious investigation of this ongoing practice, and the Board instead routinely dismissed and/or 
failed to act upon these repeated complaints. 

Additional FDA Action 

Two days after the Board finally voted to issue the consent decree in September 2004, the 
FDA and the Board returned to NECC, this time pursuant to a complaint regarding the 
company's improper production of an injectable dye used in ophthalmic procedures, Trypan ° After Barry Cadden initially denied that any Trypan Blue was in stock, FDA inspectors 
located 189 vials of the product. Trypan Blue is commercially available and should not be 51 

This inspection led to the issuance of a December 4, 2006 FDA Warning Letter to NECC. 
The Warning Letter details issues including: the sale of compounded drugs without a patient- 
specific prescription; compounding copies of commercially-available drugs; selling misbranded 
compounding drugs; and compounding standardized non-approved drugs, with associated public 
health risks, on a large scale. It specifically notes that NECC "has reportedly told physicians' 
offices that using a staff member name on a prescription would 52 

While the FDA Warning Letter seeks corrective action within 15 days and threatens that 
failure to correct could result in further regulatory action including seizure or injunction, it does 
not appear that any further action was contemplated or that any efforts to ensure that corrective 
action were sought by the agency. Moreover, FDA chose to issue this Warning Letter without 
having learned from the Board what, if any, disciplinary actions had been taken in response to 
the inspections from October 2002-February In January 2007 NECC responded to the 
Warning Letter, and in October 2008 the FDA re-asserted its authority to take "enforcement 
action, including seizure of the firm's products and/or an injunction against the firm and its 
principals" if violations noted in the Warning Letter were not corrected. The FDA also stated 
that i]n a future inspection, we will ... verify that your firm's compounding practices are 
consistent with the policy articulated in the Compliance Policy 54 This response 
came two years from the date of's initial Warning Letter and four years from the date of the 
relevant inspection. FDA took no further action until the recent outbreak. 

Further, a May 2011 email exchange shows that FDA staff, including the signatory to the 
October 2008 letter re-asserting FDA inspection authority, received a copy of a Colorado Cease 
and Desist Order issued to NECC in 2011 as the result of distribution of non-patient specific 
compounded drugs to hospitals in the Denver area. FDA staff apparently did not share the Cease 
and Desist order with the Massachusetts Board, or suggest that the Colorado Board do so until 
Colorado inspectors again discovered NECC stock compound drugs in another Colorado hospital 
in July 

Inspection Findings Subsequent to the Outbreak 

Unfortunately the long history of concerns was borne out in inspections by FDA and the 
Board following the 2012 fungal meningitis outbreak. The Massachusetts Board began a series 

8 



of inspections of NECC on September 26, 2012. The Board and/or the FDA continued 
inspecting NECC from that date until October 26, 2012. The findings demonstrate a basic lack 
of compliance with USP <797> or with safe compounding as evidenced most clearly by the fact 
that v]isible black particulate matter was seen in several recalled sealed vials of 
Methylprednisolone 56 Perhaps most critically, the FDA inspection found that NECC's 
environmental monitoring system documented 61 instances between January and August 2012 
when either bacteria or mold was detected in concentrations exceeding action-level 57 

The inspection reports found that while sterility testing conducted on the contaminated 
lots did not reveal unacceptably high levels of endotoxins, the sample provided was insufficient 
relative to the batch size. In fact when FDA sampled 50 vials of returned MPA it determined all 
fifty were contaminated with microbial growth despite the fact that sterility tests on one sample 
from the same lot in August 2012 has proven 58 The FDA and Board inspections 
unsurprisingly again document a basic lack of procedure to ensure sterile products were being 
compounded safely including: 

• Inspectors observed "greenish yellow discoloration" lining one of two autoclaves used to 
sterilize various components and 59 

• Inspectors observed "yellow residue lining the rear return of Weigh Station 2 Hood and 
greenish residue lining the rear return of Weigh Station 3 Hood.. .used to weigh active 
ingredients and other raw materials;" 60 

• "Residual powder was visually observed within the powder] hood during inspection;" 

• Tacky] mats, which are used to trap dirt, dust, and other potential contaminants from 
shoes prior to clean room entry.. .were visibly soiled with assorted 61 and 

• "A leaking boiler adjacent to the requisite clean room created an environment susceptible 
to contaminant 62 

The inspections also documented a continued disregard for the requirements of a patient-specific 
prescription for each compounded product. The state's preliminary investigation report noted: 
"NECC distributed large batches of compounded sterile products directly to facilities apparently 
for general use rather than requiring a prescription for an individual patient." 

Ameridose 

One month after the terms of NECC's 2006 consent decree were deemed satisfied, the 
Board approved a license for a new company, Ameridose, owned by the Conigliaro ' Viii 

Massachusetts Board Member Sophia Pasedis has been a manager of record for the 64 
According to media reports, Douglas Conigliaro, although not listed as an owner or manager, 
plays a significant role at 65 
Viii The ownership distribution is essentially the same with Carla Conigliaro owning 65 percent, Barry and 
Lisa Cadden owning 25 percent and Gregory Conigliaro owning 10 percent. (11-9-12 HELP Committee 
staff interview with NECC attorneys.) 

9 



Ameridose is also a sterile compounding company, but because it produces batch drugs 
for hospitals rather than patient-specific prescriptions, it is registered as a manufacturer with the 
FDA as well as with the Massachusetts 66 The company does not manufacture any FDA 
approved product but rather is exclusively a large-scale compounder. 

Until the outbreak, Ameridose contracted with Novation, the largest group purchasing 
organization in the country. Thus, Ameridose products were available to Novation's 3,000 
hospital members as well as 22,000 other providers and facilities. Despite the history of 
problems with NECC and the joint ownership of the two companies, neither the licensure of 
Ameridose nor the large scale of its operations appears to have raised any concerns amongst the 
Board or the Board staff. Documents suggest that Ameridose was subject to routine pre- 
announced inspections by the Board in 2008 and 2011 

However, the FDA had serious concerns with Ameridose. The FDA inspected the 
company in 2008 and found serious problems with the company's operations. Despite the large 
scale of Ameridose's operations even in 2008, investigators documented that products were 
shipped immediately without waiting for the results of sterility testing, that testing for potency 
and dose uniformity is not routinely performed and procedures were insufficient, and that the 
company was generally not in compliance with the requirements of USP 797 as required by 
Massachusetts law. As an example, management could not locate test results for 3 of 17 active 
ingredients inspected. Results of sampling tests taken at the August 2008 inspection returned a 
finding of superpotent Oxytocin, resulting in a recall of the product and an additional inspection 
in September 2008.68 FDA staff placed Ameridose on the work plan for high risk facilities and 
recommended that a warning letter be issued to the company although no such letter was actually 69 

While Ameridose was also the subject of at least 9 reports to the FDA of adverse events, 
faulty products, or medication errors, it is unclear that any of these triggered an inspection or 70 Following NECC's identification as the source of the fungal meningitis, the 
Board secured a temporary stop of Ameridose operations, though the company continues to hold 
a valid license. After the FDA began inspections on October 31, 2012, Ameridose issued a 
voluntary recall of all 71 

On November 12, 2012, the FDA issued a preliminary inspection report for Ameridose, 
finding startlingly similar problems to those they found NECC. Although the FDA has not 
reported any findings of contaminated drugs from Ameridose, the agency's preliminary findings 
"raised concerns about a lack of sterility assurance for products produced at and distributed by 
this 72 

The FDA's inspection found that, like at NECC, there were clear problems with ensuring 
that drugs were sterile, or that doses were uniform. The FDA found that batches of drug product 
were not tested to ensure sterility, and that procedures were not established, written, or followed 
to prevent microbiological contamination of sterile drug products. What procedures were 
available did not include adequate validation of sterilization. The report also notes that the 
company failed to write or follow procedures detailing other aspects of their 73 

10 



Moreover, the FDA found that testing of Ameridose's product did not include appropriate 
laboratory determination of conformance to the identity and strength of each active ingredient. 
And there were no written procedures for production and process controls to assure that the drug 
products had the identity, strength, quality and purity they purported to 74 

Additionally, the FDA found that the buildings were not in good repair, that equipment 
and utensils were not cleaned, maintained, and sanitized at appropriate intervals to prevent 
contamination. The company further lacked suitable procedures to facilitate cleaning and 
maintenance, lacked equipment for adequate control over air pressure, and were infested with 75 
Conclusion 

Given the history of NECC, the fact that the company produced and shipped a 
contaminated product that has led to 32 deaths and 461 infections to date is not a surprise. The 
surprise is that they were allowed to continue to engage in drug compounding for over a decade 
with this record. 

Both federal and state regulators were well aware that NECC and its owners posed a risk 
to the public health. Both had documented that the company routinely flouted requirements that 
it compound products only when a patient specific prescription was received, compounded 
unapproved and commercially available products, potentially destroyed documents and samples 
relevant to adverse events, and most critically, repeatedly failed to demonstrate that the company 
could safely compound sterile products. There were a number of authorities and mechanisms for 
both federal and state regulators to address this issue, but bureaucratic inertia appears to be what 
allowed a bad actor to repeatedly risk public health. 

The Committee will continue its investigation to determine how this tragic failure of 
oversight occurred, and how it can best be prevented in the future. 

1 FDA Internal Memorandum, February 24, 2003, re: February 5, 2003 Meeting with Massachusetts 
Board of Pharmacy /Division of Professional Licensure (239 Causeway Street, Boston, MA 02114), P. 10 

of Attachment 1. 
2 Letter from Pharmacy Support, Inc., to New England Compounding Center, January 30, 2006, and 
enclosure: Compounding Sterile and Non Sterile Preparations Observations and Recommendations Final 
Report. 

247 CMR 9.0 1(3). 
Committee staff interview with Board inspectors 11/9/12. 
Senate HELP Committee staff interviews of Massachusetts Department of Public Health staff, October 

and November, 2012. 
FDA Investigative Report, re: FACTS 298826, New England Compounding Pharmacy Inc. El 4/9, 4/10, 

4/16/02; FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Bany Cadden, R. Ph, Owner and 
Director of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., April 16, 2002. 

FDA Investigative Report, re: FACTS 298826, New England Compounding Pharmacy Inc. El 4/9, 4/10, 
4/16/02. 
8 Id 

FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, R. Ph, Owner and Director of 
Pharmacy, New England Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., April 16, 2002, p. 4. 

11 



'°Id. at4. 
Id. at4. 

12 Id. at 7. 
13 Id. at 7. 
14 Id. at 8. 
15 FDA Establishment Inspection Report and Continuation Sheet, re: FACTS 332851, New England 
Compounding Pharmacy Inc., El Start: 10/24/02, El End: 2/10/03; FDA Inspectional Observations, Form 
FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, R. Ph, Owner and Director of Pharmacy, New England Compounding 
Pharmacy, Inc., February 10, 2003, p. 5. 
16 FDA Establishment Inspection Report and Continuation Sheet, re: FACTS 332851, New England 
Compounding Pharmacy Inc., El Start: 10/24/02, El End: 2/10/03, pp. 4-5. 
17 Id. 
18 Id. 
19 FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, R. Ph, Owner and Director of 
Pharmacy, New England Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., February 10, 2003, p. 1. 

1d. at2. 
21 FDA Internal Memorandum, February 24, 2003, re: February 5, 2003 Meeting with Massachusetts 
Board of Pharmacy /Division of Professional Licensure (239 Causeway Street, Boston, MA 02114), p. 2. 
22 Id. at 3-4. 
23 FDA Establishment Inspection Report, re: FACTS 332851, New England Compounding Pharmacy 
Inc., El Start: 10/24/02, El End: 2/10/03, p. 1. 
24 Massachusetts Department of Public Health Division of Health Professions Licensure, Investigation 
Report, Re: New England Compounding Center, DS 03 055, and Barry Cadden, PH 03 066, March 4, 
2004, p. 9. 
25 Id. at 9. 
26 Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Pharmacy Board Meeting Minutes: Tuesday, 
September 21, 2004, p. 9. 
27 Letter from the Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy to New England Compounding 
Center, re: Docket Number DS-03-055/PH-03-066/ New England Compounding Center (Permit #2848) 
and Barry Cadden, R.Ph., License No. 21239, October 4, 2004; Massachusetts Board of Registration in 
Pharmacy, Consent Agreement re: Docket No. DS-03-055, PH-03-066. 
28 Id. 
29 Letter from Paul Cirel, counsel for New England Compounding Center, to Board of Registration in 
Pharmacy, re: Docket Number DS-03-055/PH-03-066/ New England Compounding Center (Permit 
#2848) and Barry Cadden, R.Ph., License No. 21239, November 11, 2004. 
1d. at4. 
31 Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Pharmacy Board Meeting Minutes: Tuesday, 
November 23, 2004, . 
32 Senate HELP Committee staff interviews of Massachusetts Department of Public Health staff, October 
and November, 2012. 

Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Consent Agreement re: Docket No. DS-03-055, PH- 
03-066, DS-05-040, January 10, 2006. 

Id. 
Id. at 1. 

36 FDA Internal Memorandum, February 24, 2003, re: February 5, 2003 Meeting with Massachusetts 
Board of Pharmacy /Division of Professional Licensure (239 Causeway Street, Boston, MA 02114), p. 2. 

Letter from Pharmacy Support, Inc., to New England Compounding Center, January 30, 2006, and 
enclosure: Compounding Sterile and Non Sterile Preparations Observations and Recommendations Final 
Report. 
38 Id. 

12 



Pharmacy Support, Inc., Final Report USP <795>/< 797> Implementation New England Compounding 
Center Framingham, Ma, April 7, 2006. 
40 Id. 
41 Letters between Board and NECC, April 12, 2006, April 19, 2006, May 10, 2006, and May 22, 2006. 
42 Letter from MA Board to NECC, June 2, 2006. 

Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Pharmacy Board Meeting Minutes: Tuesday, 
September 21, 2004. 

Letter from the Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy to New England Compounding 
Center, re: In the matter ofDS-03-038 and PH-03-042 New England Compounding Center (Permit 
#2848), September 30, 2004; Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Advisory Letter re: 
Docket No. DS-03-036, PH-03-042, September 30, 2004; Letter from the Massachusetts Board of 
Registration in Pharmacy to New England Compounding Center, re: In the matter of DS-03-060 and PH- 
03-0 70 New England Compounding Center (Permit #2848), September 30, 2004; Massachusetts Board 
of Registration in Pharmacy, Advisory Letter re: Docket No. DS-03-060, PH-03-070, September 30, 2004; 
Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Advisory Letter re: Docket No. DS-04-062, PH-04- 
161, September 30, 2004. 

Massachusetts Department of Public Health Division of Health Professions Licensure, Investigation 
Report, Re: New England Compounding Center, DS 03 055, and Barry Cadden, PH 03 066, March 4, 
2004 at 7. 
46 Email from redacted] to Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, re: New England 
Compounding Center Activity in the State of Wisconsin, April 27, 2004. 

Massachusetts Department of Public Health Division of Health Professions Licensure, Investigation 
Report, Re: New England Compounding Center, DS 05 040, reviewed by Board Members on November 
23, 2004. 
48 E-mail from Colorado Department of Regulatory Agencies to Massachusetts Board of Registration in 
Pharmacy, re: New England Compounding Center, July 26, 2012; Colorado State Board of Pharmacy, 
Special Report, re: New Egland Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. (WHO 7832), July 20, 2012. 

Id. 
FDA Internal Memorandum, Re: Inspection/Investigation of New England Compounding Center, 

January26, 2005. 
Id. at2. 
52 FDA Warning Letter to NECC, Dec 4, 2006. 

FDA Internal Memorandum, Re: Inspection/Investigation of New England Compounding Center, 
January 26, 2005 at 4. 

Letter from FDA to NECC, Oct 31, 2008. 
E-mails between Colorado Board of Pharmacy and FDA, May 10, 2011 and July 16, 2012; Colorado 

State Board of Pharmacy, Special Report, re: New England Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. (WHO 7832), 
July 20, 2012. 
56 Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy Report, NECC Preliminary Investigation Findings, 
October 23, 2012, at 4. 

FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, Owner, New England 
Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., d/b/a/ New England Compounding Center, October 26, 2012. 
58 FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, Owner, New England 
Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., d/b/a/ New England Compounding Center, October 26, 2012. 

Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy Report, NECC Preliminary Investigation Findings, 
October 23, 2012 at 1. 
60 Id. at 7. 
61 Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy Report, NECC Preliminary Investigation Findings, 
October 23, 2012 at 4. 
62 Id. at 5. 

13 



Ameridose, LLC, Application for a New Store 50 Fountain Street, 2006. 
MId 

Abby Goodnough et. al., "Spotlight Put on Founders of Drug Firm in Outbreak," New York Times, 
October 24, 2012, http://www.nytimes.com/2012/1 0/25/health/with-meningitis-outbreak-a-spotlight-on- 
family-behind-compounding-pharmacy.html?pagewanted=all (accessed November 14, 2012). 
66 

See, e.g. FDA Establishment Inspection Report, Ameridose, LLC, January 16, 2008, p. 1; Ameridose, 
LLC, Application for a New Store 50 Fountain Street, 2006. 

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Division of Health Professions Licensure, Inspection Report, 
11/19/08; The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Division of Health Professions Licensure, Inspection 
Report, 11/7/11. 
68 FDA Establishment Inspection Report, Ameridose, LLC, El Start: 09/17/2008, El End: 09/18/2008. 

FDA Establishment Inspection Report, Ameridose, LLC, August 22, 2008, p. 1. 
70 FDA, FAERS search results for suspect drugs labeled as Ameridose, New England Compounding 
Center orAlaunus, Reports initially received by FDA from 1/1/02 to 9/25/12, provided to Committee on 
November 8, 2012; See also, Letter from Wiley Rein, LLP to Massachusetts Board of Registration in 
Pharmacy, re: Complaint Against Ameridose LLCfor Unlawful Manufacturing and Distribution of Pre- 
Mixed Nicardipine Injection Products, June 30, 2010 (the resulting investigation was administratively 
closed). 
71 FDA Press release: FDA reports voluntary recall of all Ameridose drug products, October 31, 2012, 
http://www.fda. gov/NewsEvents/Newsroom/PressAnnouncements/ucm3263 61 , (accessed November 
14, 2012). 
72 Id. 

FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Gary Conigliaro, Vice President and General 
Manager, Ameridose, LLC, November 9, 2012. 

Id. 
Id. 

14 


	Bookmarks
	Tuesday, October 8, 2013 - 1:00p.m.
	TAB 1: REPORTS
	A. Chair's Report - Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair
	B. Executive Director's Report - Mark Whitten
	Request for Declaratory Statement - Eric J. Renker, PharmD
	Meeting Notice
	Request for Declaratory Statement - Eric J. Renker, PharmD

	MedAvail Technologies
	Meeting Notice
	MedAvail Technologies

	Senate Bill 248

	C. Attorney General's Report - David Flynn, Assistant Attorney General
	1. Rules Report

	D. Prosecuting Attorney Report - Yolonda Green, Assistant General Counsel
	1. Prosecution Services Report

	E. Chief Investigative Report - Jeane Clyne

	TAB 2: BUSINESS - Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair
	A. Ratification of Issued Licenses/Certificates & Staffing Ratios
	1. Pharmacist (Licensure)(Client 2201) - 737
	2. Pharmacist (Exam Eligibility)(Client 2201) - 1,298
	3. Pharmacist Interns (Client 2202) - 150
	4. Registered Pharmacy Technicians (Client 2208) - 1,065
	5. Consultant Pharmacist (Client 2203) - 30
	6. Nuclear Pharmacist (2204) - 1
	7. Pharmacies/Facilities (2205) - 121
	8. Registered Pharmacy Technician Ratios (2:1 or 3:1) - 54
	9. Pharmacy Technician Training Programs (2209) - 16
	10. CE Providers - 19
	11. CE Courses - 28
	12. CE Individual Requests (Approved) - 6
	13. CE Individual Requests (Denied) - 0

	B. Review and Approval of Minutes
	1. August 13-14, 2013 Meeting Minutes



	Wednesday, October 9, 2013 - 9:00a.m.
	TAB 3: COMMITTEE REPORTS
	1. Rules Committee Update - Jeff Mesaros, PharmD.
	2. Compounding Rules Committee Update - Michele Weizer, PharmD.

	TAB 4: DISCIPLINARY CASES - Yolonda Green, Esq. & Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair
	SETTLEMENT AGREEMENTS
	A-1 Premier Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., Case No. 2012-02690 - LS
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Notice of Scrivener's Error
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint

	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Cost Summary Report
	Defense Attorney/Respondent's Documents
	Prosecutor's Documents
	Supplemental Investigative Report dated 6/19/12, 7/19/12 & 7/24/12
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, complaint form, copy of DOH pharmacy inspection dated 1/23/12, pages 8-14
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Subject Notification letter dated 3/7/12, page 15
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of Saxon's reports, printouts and pictures obtained during the inspection, pages 16-86
	Exhibit 4 - Copies of all previous pharmacy inspections at Premier, pages 87-97
	Exhibit 5 - Copies of the pharmacy re-inspection dated 5/21/12 with supports, pages 98-160
	Exhibit 6 - Christian's response packet, pages 161-172


	A-2 Cody Fay Balance, R.Ph., Case No. 2012-16677 - MSM
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint

	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Cost Summary
	PCP Memorandum
	456 Packet
	Supplemental dated 3/29/13
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Attachments, pages 5-16
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification Letter with attachments dated 12/7/12, pages 17-29
	Exhibit 3 - Status 30 Letter mailed 12/8/12, page 30
	Exhibit 4 - Letter of Legal Representation, page 31
	Exhibit 5 - Subpoena for Medical Records from Palms of Pasadena Hospital, pages 32-35
	Exhibit 6 - Medical Records from Palms of Pasadena Hospital, pages 36-96
	Exhibit 7 - Documents obtained from Walgreen Company, pages 97-101
	Exhibit 8 - Confidential Index, pages 102


	A-3 Florida Solutions Pharmacy, Case No. 2013-00163 - KB
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint
	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Cost Summary Report
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 4-7
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Notification letter, dated 1/17/13, page 8
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of last three pharmacy inspections for Florida Solutions Pharmacy, pages 9-13
	Exhibit 4 - Written Statement from Delgado, pages 14-16


	A-4 Scott Edward Kierenia, R.Ph., Case No. 2013-06313 - JVJ
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint

	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Cost Summary Report
	Supplemental dated 5/24/13
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 7-10
	Exhibit 2 - Subject notification letter with attachments, dated 4/30/13 & 5/1/13, pages 11-20
	Exhibit 3 - Source letter dated 5/2/13, page 21
	Exhibit 4 - Photo and patient information received from J.O., pages 22-23
	Exhibit 5 - Subpoena Duces Tecum #A0080622 directed to Florida Hospital - Celebration, pages 24-32
	Exhibit 6 - Patient records for J.O. received from Florida Hospital with Certification, pages 33-197
	Exhibit 7 - Request letter directed to Target Pharmacy, dated 5/1/13, pages 198-201
	Exhibit 8 - Copy of prescription profile for J.O. from Target Pharmacy, pages 202-210
	Exhibit 9 - Request letter directed to Target Pharmacy dated 5/2/13, pages 211-215
	Exhibit 10 - Documents received from Target Pharmacy, pages 216-223
	Exhibit 11 - Copies of prior inspections for Target Pharmacy, pages 224-226
	Exhibit 12 - Reminder letter dated 5/14/13, directed to Kierenia, page 227
	Exhibit 13 - Final reminder letter dated 5/17/13, directed to Kierenia, page 228
	Exhibit 14 - Confidential Index, page 229


	A-5 Monika Marie Girgis, R.Ph., Case No. 2013-03899 - MGW
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Election of Rights
	Settlement Agreement
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint

	Letter dated 8/30/13 from Allen Grossman
	Board Notification Letter
	Complaint Cost Summary
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 6-8
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Notification Letter with attachments, dated 3/7/13, pages 9-12
	Exhibit 3 - Curriculum vitae received from Girgis on 3/20/13, pages 13-14
	Exhibit 4 - Fax to Clearwater Police Department Records Division on 3/11/13, pages 15-16
	Exhibit 5 - Clearwater Police Report #CW13-31901 received on 3/18/13, pages 17-20
	Exhibit 6 - Clearwater police Department's Supplemental Report #CW13-31901/1, pages 21-28
	Exhibit 7 - Patient prescription profile from Walgreens for G.B., pages 29-34
	Exhibit 8 - Work Schedule for Girgis, pages 35-39
	Exhibit 9 - Fax to Dr. Lara's office dated 3/21/13, pages 40-43
	Exhibit 10 - Fax received from Dr. Larva's office with statement dated 3/21/13, pages 44-50
	Exhibit 11 - Confidential Patient Index, page 51


	A-6 Adorys Martinez Flores, R.Ph., Case No. 2013-01123 - CAJ
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint

	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Cost Summary
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and attachments, pages 7-15
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Subject Notification letter, dated 1/18/13, page 16
	Exhibit 3 - Re-inspection dated 2/27/13 and school and student pharmacy technician document, pages 17-21
	Exhibit 4 - Pharmacy inspections (prior 2/10/12) and pharmacy history of inspections, pages 22-23
	Exhibit 5 - Florida On-Line Corporate Records for (Las Mercedes Drug Stores, Inc.), pages 24-34
	Exhibit 6 - Statement/affidavit and CV from Subject Adorys Martinez Flores, pages 35-44
	Exhibit 7 - Additional documents submitted after re-inspection of 2/27/13, pages 45-54


	A-7 Jessica Danielle Bramble, R.P.T., Case No. 2012-16397 - MGW
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint

	Board Notification letter
	Election of Rights
	Cost Summary
	PCP Memorandum
	Copied from 1/31/13 PCP - Case No. 2012-16397
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Attachments, pages 6-8
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Notification letter, dated 11/7/12, page 9
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of Status 30 letter, dated 11/8/12, page 10
	Exhibit 4 - DOH Affidavit and Subpoena Duces Tecum A0074856 to Lee Memorial Health System for documentation of the alleged diversion of Jessica Bramble, RPT, dated 11/7/12, page 11-13
	Exhibit 5 - Records from Lee Memorial Health System's Human Resources Department, received 11/9/12, page 14-114
	Exhibit 6 - DOH Affidavit and Subpoena Duces Tecum A0074862 to Lee Memorial Health System for the investigative Memo/Report, dated 11/7/12, pages 115-117
	Exhibit 7 - Investigative Memo from Lee Memorial Health System, received 11/9/12, pages 118-195
	Exhibit 8 - DOH Affidavit and Subpoena Duces Tecum A0074862 to Lee Memorial System for Jessica Bramble, RPT's drug screen, dated 11/9/12, pages 196-198
	Exhibit 9 - Drug screen results for Jessica Bramble, RPT provided by Lee Memorial Health System, received 11/9/12, pages 199-203




	VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENTS
	VR-1 Healthy Choice Pharmacy, Inc., PH, Case No. 2013-07687 - AMM
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment of License
	Voluntary Relinquishment (filed)
	Board Notification Letter
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 5-7
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Notification Letter dated 5/29/13, pages 8-17
	Exhibit 3 - Florida Corporation information regarding corporation ownership, pages 18-20
	Exhibit 4 - Copy of Pharmacy Inspection Report dated 2/24/13, page 21
	Exhibit 5 - Photographs of business, page 22
	Exhibit 6 - CD (one) of photographs, page 23
	Exhibit 7 - Evidence Control Form, page 24
	Exhibit 8 - Voluntary Relinquishment signed by Silvestro on 6/26/3, pages 25-27
	Exhibit 9 - Email message sent to Danny Hernandez, Deputy General Counsel PSU, page 28


	VR-2 DRM Enterprises, Inc., Case No. 2013-07692 - MGL
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Final Order
	Voluntary Relinquishment (filed)
	Notification Letter
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 5-7
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification Letter with attachments dated 5/30/13, pages 8-19
	Exhibit 3 - Florida Corporation Information regarding corporation ownership, pages 20-25
	Exhibit 4 - Inspection Report, page 26
	Exhibit 5 - Photographs of business, pages 27-28
	Exhibit 6 - CD of digital photographs, page 29
	Exhibit 7 - Evidence Control Form, page 30
	Exhibit 8 - Letter of Representation from A.S. Weekly, Attorney, dated 6/19/13, pages 31-34
	Exhibit 9 - Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form received 7/3/13, pages 35-42
	Exhibit 10 - Email message sent to Yolanda Green, Attorney for PSU, page 43


	VR-3 Joshua Stephen Ezzo, RPT, Case No. 2012-15204 - JS
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Voluntary Relinquishment
	Administrative Complaint
	Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Probable Cause Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, complaint, and the Court documents from Clay County, pages 4-22
	Exhibit 2 - Ezzo Notification Letter with attachments, pages 23-29


	VR-4 Malissa Sue Bender, R.P.T., Case No. 2013-10982 - MGL
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Final Order
	Voluntary Relinquishment (filed)
	Notification Letter
	Supplemental dated 7/23/13
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, complaint, news article, pages 5-7
	Exhibit 2 - Subject notification letter with attachments, dated 7/17/13 and Voluntary Relinquishment, pages 8-13
	Exhibit 3 - Police Report from Port Saint Lucie Police Department, pages 14-21


	VR-5 Deborah Louise Chenoweth, R.Ph., Case No. 2013-00800 - MGL
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Voluntary Relinquishment (filed)
	Administrative Complaint
	Notice of Scrivener's Error
	Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary & Initiating Documents, pages 4-23
	Exhibit 2 - Chenoweth's Notification Letter, page 24
	Exhibit 3 - Chenoweth's Response, pages 25-27


	VR-6 DRM Enterprises, Inc., d/b/a Wilson Drug, Case No. 2013-07691 - KB
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment of License
	Voluntary Relinquishment (filed)
	Notification Letter
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 5-7
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification Letter with attachments dated 5/30/13, pages 8-20
	Exhibit 3 - Florida Corporation Information regarding corporation ownership, pages 21-26
	Exhibit 4 - Inspection Reports, pages 27-28
	Exhibit 5 - Photographs of business, pages 29-30
	Exhibit 6 - CD of digital photographs, page 31
	Exhibit 7 - Evidence Control Form (Photographs), page 32
	Exhibit 8 - Letter of Representation from A.S. Weekly, Attorney, dated 6/19/13, pages 33-34
	Exhibit 9 - Voluntary Relinquishment of License Form received 7/3/13, pages 35-42
	Exhibit 10 - E-mail message sent tot Yolanda Green, Attorney for PSU, page 43


	VR-7 Eric H. Cairns, R.Ph., Case No. 2013-05212 - MGW
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Final Order
	Voluntary Relinquishment of License (filed)
	Board Notification Letter
	Supplemental 1 dated 7/29/13
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary & Attachments, pages 11-24
	Exhibit 2 - Notification Letter with Attachments, pages 25-32
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of a St. Johns County Sheriff's Office offense report dated 3/2413, pages 33-35
	Exhibit 4 - Copy of a Jacksonville Sheriff's Office field investigation report dated 3/24/13, pages 36-37
	Exhibit 5 - Copy of a Jacksonville Sheriff's Office field investigation report dated 3/30/13, pages 38-39
	Exhibit 6 - Copy of a Florida Department of Law Enforcement arrest and booking report dated 4/1/14, pages 40-42


	VR-8 Brothers Pharmacy and Discount, LLC, Case No. 2013-01267 - KB
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment of License
	Voluntary Relinquishment (filed)
	Notification of Letter
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 4-11
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Notification letter, dated 1/28/13, page 12
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of letter of representation/statement from Brothers Pharmacy, pages 13-14
	Exhibit 4 - Copy of last three pharmacy inspections for Brothers Pharmacy, pages 15-19
	Exhibit 5 - Copy of FDLE search warrant and related information received from FDLE for Brothers Pharmacy, pages 20-160



	DETERMINATION OF WAIVERS
	DOW-1 Ihab S. Barsoum, P.S., Case No. 2011-17660 - MGL
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Determination of Waiver
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint
	Exhibit B - Certified Mail Receipt
	Exhibit C - Affidavit of Diligent Search
	Exhibit D - Board Affidavit
	Exhibit E - Clerk's Office

	Letter dated 7/20/13
	Motion to Assess Cost
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees & Cost Expended
	Exhibit 1 - Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost

	Probable Cause Memorandum
	Emergency Suspension Order Packet
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 5-7
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of subject notification letter with attachments dated 11/21/12, pages 8-11
	Exhibit 3 - Voluntary Relinquishment of License form of Barsoum, pages 12-14
	Exhibit 4 - Documents obtained from United District Court Middle District of Florida Tampa Division, pages 15-30
	Exhibit 5 - Department of Health Investigative Services Community Pharmacy Inspections for dated 9/28/12, pages 31-32

	Letter dated 10/31/13 (US Department of Justice)

	DOW-2 Good Sight Pharmacy, Inc., Case No. 2013-00708 - VF
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Determination of Waivers
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint
	Exhibit B - Copy of Certified Mail Receipt
	Exhibit C - Affidavit of Diligent Search
	Exhibit D - Proof of Publication
	Exhibit E - Board Affidavit
	Exhibit F - Clerk Affidavit

	Motion to Assess Costs
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of fees and costs expended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost by Complaint

	Supplemental Report dated 6/17/13
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Summary and attachments, pages 4-9
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Notificiation letter, page 10


	DOW-3 George Adriazola, RPT, Case No. 2012-16942 - KB
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Determination of Waiver
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint
	Exhibit B - Copy of Certified Mail Receipt
	Exhibit C - Affidavit of Diligent Search
	Exhibit D - Board Affidavit
	Exhibit E - Clerk Affidavit

	Motion to Assess Cost
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost by Complaint

	Supplemental dated 6/12/13
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Attachments, pages 6-25
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Subject Notification Letter, dated 12/4/12, page 26


	DOW-4 Speed II Pharmacy, Inc., Case No. 2012-18551 - MGW
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Determination of Waiver
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint
	Exhibit B - Copy of Certified Mail Receipt
	Exhibit C - Board Affidavit
	Exhibit D - Clerk Affidavit

	Motion to Assess Costs
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expanded
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Case Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized cost by Complaint

	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and attachments from initiating documents, pages 5-8
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Subject Notification letter. dated 12/27/12, page 9
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of Florida Department of State Division of corporation listing De La Torr Guide, pages 10-28
	Exhibit 4 - Copy of Pictures  taken by this investigator on 1/13/13 during a re-inspection visit, pages 29-31
	Exhibit 5 - Copy of email correspondence between Speed II Pharmacy, Inc., Owner and this investigator, page 32
	Exhibit 6 - Copy of Speed II Pharmacy statement, pages 33-60


	DOW-5 Ryan Daniel Rodriguez, R.P.T., Case No. 2012-13596 & 2012-13608 - TJM
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Determination of Waiver
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint
	Exhibit B - Certified Mail Receipt
	Exhibit C - Affidavit of Diligent Search
	Exhibit D - Affidavit of Non Receipt - Board
	Exhibit E - Affidavit of Non Receipt - Clerk's Office

	PCP Memorandum
	Case No. 2012-13596
	Supplemental Report dated 10/8/12 - S-1

	Other Required Documents
	Motion to Assess Costs
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Costs

	Order of Emergency Suspension of License Packet

	Final Investigative Report (Case No. 2012-13596)
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Attachments, pages 7-13
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification Letter & Attachments (including Voluntary Relinquishment paperwork) hand-served to Rodriguez's residence dated 9/17/12, pages 14-23
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of Subpoena A 0074296 issed to Walgreens for a copy of evidence of alleged medication diversion, pages 24-25
	Exhibit 4 - Copy of Administrative Paperwork from Walgreens received via UPS on 9/26/12, pages 26-50
	Exhibit 5 - Copy of Administrative Paperwork from Walgrens received via email, (formatted onto CD) on 9/26/12, page 51
	Exhibit 6 - Copy of Rodriguez's Sworn Statement provided to the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office received from the Assistant State Attorney's Office via facsimile on 9/28/12, pages 52-53
	Exhibit 7 - Copy of an IPN/DOH Investigator Communication Form this investigator faxed to PRN for current PRN activity of Rodriguez on 9/17/12, pages 54-55
	Exhibit 8 - Copy of an IPN/DOH Investigator Communication Form response received via facsimile from PRN on 9/18/12, Pages 56-57

	Final Investigative Report (Case No. 2012-13608)
	Exhibit 1 - Uniform Complaint Form, Initiating Documents & Court Documents, pages 4-13
	Exhibit 2 - Subject's Notification Letter, page 14



	INFORMALS
	I-1 James M. Maister, R.Ph., Case No. 2010-19143 - CLC
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues of Material Fact for Final Order
	Administrative Complaint
	Motion to Assess Cost
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fee and Cost
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost by Complaint

	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Email dated 4/19/13
	Supplemental dated 4/18/13
	PRN Letter
	456 Package
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 9-10
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of DOH Licensure Printout, page 11
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of Subject Notification Letter with attachments dated 10/8/13, pages 12-14
	Exhibit 4 - PRN/DOH Investigator Communication Form, pages 15-16
	Exhibit 5 - Copy of Subpoena Duces Tecum A-0065688 directed to University Community Hospital Human Resources Department for copies of James M. Maister's, R.Ph., personnel records, pages 17-23
	Exhibit 6 - James M. Maister's, R.Ph. personnel records received via United States Postal Service with certification of completeness of records, pages 24-118
	Exhibit 7 - Documents obtained from Target Pharmacy #1382 on 10/15/10, pages 119-124
	Exhibit 8 - Documents obtained from Kathy A Moorman, R.Ph., Pharmacy Director of University Community Hospital, Tampa, Florida 125-126
	Exhibit 9 - James Matthew Maister Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 9/30/10, page 127
	Exhibit 10 - Pasco Sheriff's Office Offense Incident Report of James Matthew Maister Individual Charge Report Number 10-059683-01, pages 128-146
	Exhibit 11 - Documents obtained from Paco County Courthouse; Dade City, Florida on 10/15/10, pages 147-148
	Exhibit 12 - James Matthew Maister Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 10/08/02, page 149-151
	Exhibit 13 - Documents obtained from Hillsborough County Courthouse; Tampa, Florida on 10/19/10, pages 152-169
	Exhibit 14 - Documents obtained from Hillsborough County Courthouse, Tampa, Florida ON 10/15/10, pages 170-172
	Exhibit 15 - James Matthew Maister Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 9/6/99, pages 173-174
	Exhibit 16 - Documents obtained from Pasco County Courthouse, Dade City, Florida on 10/15/10, page 175
	Exhibit 17 - Florida Department of Health Physician Prescription Affidavits, pages 176-179


	I-2 Dino Jose Antonioni, R.Ph., Case No. 2012-14458 - KB
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues of Material Fact for Final Order
	Administrative Complaint
	Motion to Assess Cost with Attachments
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Cost Expended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost by Complaint

	Board Notification Letters
	Board Notification Letter (2)
	Election of Rights
	Prosecutor Document
	Supplemental with attachments dated 4/17/13
	Emergency Suspension Package
	PCP Memo
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Attachments, pages 7-57
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Subject Notification Letter, dated 10/8/12, page 58
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of DOH Licensure Verification Page, page 59
	Exhibit 4 - Copy of United States District Court, Northern District of California Plea Agreement, pages 60-69
	Exhibit 5 - Antonioni's Curriculum Vitae, page 70-72


	I-3 Eric Jansen Gaines, II, RPT, Case No. 2012-16863 - LWL
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Final Order
	Administrative Complaint
	Supplemental Investigative Report III dated 5/15/13 with Exhibits S-1 through S-2
	Supplemental Investigative Report II dated 4/18/13 with Exhibits S-1 through S-3
	Supplemental Investigative Report I dated 3/12/14 with Exhibit S-1
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report with Exhibit 1-4
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and attachments, pages 4-7
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Notification letter with attachments dated 11/16/12, pages 8-12
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of court documents from the Leon County Clerk of Courts, pages 13-18
	Exhibit 4 - Copy of court documents from Wakulla County Clerk of Courts, pages 19-36

	Other Required Documents
	Order Compelling an Examination
	Emergency Suspension Order
	Election of Rights
	Motion to Assess Costs with attachments
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fee and Costs Expended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost by Complaint

	Notification Letter to Respondent


	I-4 Lamonte George Hambrick, R.P.T., Case No. 2013-01501 - LAL
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues of Material Fact for Final Order
	Administrative Complaint
	Motion to Assess Cost
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost by Complaint

	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Defense Attorney/Respondent Documents
	Prosecutor's Documents
	PCP Memorandum
	ESO Package
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Uniform Complaint Form & Initiating Documents, pages 4-19
	Exhibit 2 - Hambrick's Notification, pages 20-21




	TAB 5: APPLICATIONS REQUIRING BOARD REVIEW - Debra Glass, BPharm
	A. Pharmacist Examination Applications
	1. Joseph Thomas Brown - File: 44114 - Lake Worth, Florida.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Form A (Education)
	Verification of Intern Hours
	Letter from Allen R. Grossman
	Professional Summary for Mr. Brown
	Criminal History Documents
	Florida Board Orders & DOH Orders
	Notice of Denial of License Renewal
	Letter from PRN
	Letter from Mark Sacchetti, BA
	Letter from John Abuso, D.Min, LMFT
	Documentation from Consumer Services
	90 Day Waiver Letter Documents

	2. Arlen Trevor Harter - File: 43350 - Bradenton, Florida.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Form A (Education)
	Personal Statement from Mr. Harter
	Florida Board Orders
	PRN Documents
	2007 Voluntary Agreement to Withdraw from Practice
	Medical History Documents
	Criminal History Documents
	Medication Errors Certificate

	3. Clifton Webb - File: 44069 - Pembroke Pines, Florida.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Form A (Education)
	Statement from Mr. Webb
	Medical History Documents
	Medication Errors Certificate .


	B. Pharmacist Endorsement Applications
	1. Rodney Vuurens - File: 42822 - Harlingen, Texas.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Form A (Education)
	Form B (Work Experience)
	Personal Statement and Verbatim Transcript from Mr. Vuurens
	Michigan License Verification and Documentation
	Texas License Verification and Documentation
	Application Transfer Documentation from NABP
	Letter of Reference from Pastor Logan
	30 Hours of Continuing Education Certificates

	2. Mark Alan Kemp - File: 43630 - Decatur, Illinois.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Form A (Education)
	Form B (Work Experience)
	Personal Statement from Mr. Kemp
	Illinois License Verification and Documentation
	Letter from Charles Kerwin, CADC, LCSW
	NABP Official Application for Transfer
	Medication Errors Certificate
	30 Hours of Continuing Education Certificates

	3. Darren James Palmer - File: 42962 - Ft. Lauderdale, Florida.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Form A (Education)
	Form B (Work Experience)
	Personal Statement from Mr. Palmer
	Attestation of Ownership
	New York License Verification and Documents
	Criminal History Documents
	Letter from Dr. Kenneth W. Thompson, M.D., FASAM with Caron
	NABP Official Application for Transfer of Pharmacist License
	Continuing Education Credits

	4. Richard P. Becker - File: 42747 - Ft. Lauderdale, Florida.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Form A (Education)
	Resume in lieu of Form B
	New Jersey Licensure Verification
	NABP Application of Transfer
	Continuing Education Certificates

	5. Janet Dwigans - File: 43834 - Greencastle, Indiana.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Form A (Education)
	Purdue University Transcript (Unreadable Scan, Degree Verified by Office Staff)
	Form B (Work Experience)
	Personal Statement from Ms. Dwigans
	Application Transfer Documentation from NABP
	Indiana Licensure Verification & Documentation
	PRN Documentation
	Kentucky License Verification
	Letters of Reference
	Continuing Education Certificates

	6. Rosemary Tecza - File: 44101 - Wadsworth, Ohio.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Form A (Education)
	Statement from Ms. Tecza
	Ohio License Verification
	NABP Official Application for Transfer of Pharmacist License
	Letter from Lurley J. Archambeau, M.D.
	Medication Errors Certificate


	C. Pharmacy Intern Applications
	1. Curtis Michael Drees - File: 19170 - Fort Loramie, Ohio.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Statement from Mr. Drees
	Criminal History Documents
	Ohio License Verification
	MedTox Screening Results


	D. Registered Pharmacy Technician Applications
	1. Joshua Klasinski - File: 51724 - Sarasota, Florida.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Technician Training Course Certificate
	Personal Statement from Mr. Klasinski
	Florida BOM Final Orders
	Report from Compliance Services Unit
	Completion of Counseling Form
	Letters of Reference
	Miscellaneous Documents

	2. Whitney Elizabeth Mack - File: 49600 - Jacksonville, Florida.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Statement from Ms. Mack
	Medical History Documents
	Course Certificate


	E. Non-Resident Pharmacy Permit Applications
	1. Wiley Chemists Pharmacy, Inc. - File: 19943 - Santa Fe, New Mexico.
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Pharmacy Inspection Report
	Personal Statement from PDM, Herbert Bruce Bowman
	New Mexico Licensure Verification For Wiley Chemists, Inc.
	New Mexico Licensure Verification and Documentation for Herbert Bruce Bowman
	Certificate of Incorporation
	IRS Confirmation of FEIN



	TAB 6: LICENSURE ISSUES
	A. Informal Hearing
	1. EntirelyPets Pharmacy, LLC - File: 19899 - Union City, CA
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Appeal of Notice to Deny
	Application for Non-Resident Pharmacy Permit
	California Licensure Verifications
	California Board Orders
	Pharmacy Inspection Report
	California Articles of Organization



	TAB 7 - REFERENCE MATERIALS
	A. Florida Statutes
	1. Chapter 465, Florida Statutes: Pharmacy
	2. Chapter 893, Florida Statutes: Drug Abuse Prevention and Control
	3. Chapter 456, Florida Statutes: Health Professions and Occupations: General Provisions
	4. Chapter 499, Florida Statutes: Drug, Cosmetic, and Household Products
	5. Chapter 120, Florida Statutes: Administrative Procedure Act

	B. Rules
	1. 64B16-25: Organization and Purpose
	2. 64B16-26: Pharmacists Licensure
	3. 64B16-27: Pharmacy Practice
	4. 64B16-28: General Requirements - Permits
	5. 64B16-29: Animal Control Shelter Permits
	6. 64B16-30: Disciplinary Guidelines

	C. United States Pharmacopeia (USP) 797
	D. Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act
	E. The Committee On Energy And Commerce - Briefing Document- Hearing on “The Fungal Meningitis Outbreak: Could It Have Been Prevented?”
	F. Massachusetts Compounding Survey
	G. Correspondence, Florida Pharmacy Association
	H. United States Senate Committee on Health, Education, Labor, and Pensions' Staff Report for November 15, 2012 Hearing on Meningitis




